


2014 Committee Member Assignments 

Legislative Liaison: 

Rules Committee: 

Compounding Rules Committee: 

Prescription Drug Abuse Committee: 

Application Review: 

ULA Liaison: 

PDMP Liaison: 

Wholesale Advisory Council: 

Negative Formulary Committee: 

Tripartite Committee Chair: 

Administrative/Budget Liaison: 

Pharmacist Ordering Committee: 

DEA Liaison: 

Weight of the State Liaison: 



2013 Board Member Assignments 

Legislative Liaison: Mrs. Glass 

Rules Committee: Dr. Mesaros (Chair), Dr. Weizer, Mrs. Mullins, Mrs. Glass 

Compounding Rules Committee: Dr. Weizer (Chair), Mrs. Glass, Mrs. Mullins, Dr. Mikhael 

Prescription Drug Abuse Committee: Mr. Meshad (Chair), Dr. Weizer, Mrs. Mullins, Mrs. Glass 

Application Review: Dr. Griffin, Mrs. Glass 

ULA Liaison: Mrs. Mullins 

PDMP Liaison: Dr. Mesaros 

Wholesale Advisory Council: Mr. Garcia 

Negative Formulary Committee: TBD 

Tripartite Committee Chair: Dr. Griffin 

Administrative/Budget Liaison: Dr. Weizer 

Pharmacist Ordering Committee: TBD 



2014 Association Meetings 

FPA 

Law and Regulatory Conference 

January 25-26, 2014— San Destin, FL 

Clinical Conference 

April 5-6, 2014— Tampa, FL 

Law and Clinical Conference 

May 17-18, 2014—Jacksonville, FL 

th 
EPA Annual Meeting Convention 

July 9-13, 2014— Fort Lauderdale, FL 

5t Annual Southeastern Gatherin' 

August 3-6, 2014 — Destin, FL 

FSH P 

House of Delegates 

Chair and Executive Director are "Delegates" 

August 7-10, 2014— Orlando, FL 

NABP 

2014 NABP Annual Meeting 

May 17-20, 2014— Phoenix, AZ 

District 3 Meeting 

August 2-5, 2014 — Charleston, SC 

MPJE State Specific Review 

September 4-5, 2014 

NAPLEX Item Development Workshop 

September 18-19, 2014 

FPGEE/PCOA Item Development Workshop 

October 16-17, 2014 

NAPLEX Standard Setting 

November 6-7, 2014 



2013 Association Meeting Assignments 

FPA 

Law and Regulatory Compliance Conference 

April 20-21, 2013—Tampa, FL 

Dr. Jeff Mesa ros 

rd Annual Meeting and Convention 

July 10-14, 2013 — Orlando, FL 

Dr. Lee Fallon 

th Annual Southeastern Gathering 

August 4-7, 2013 — Destin, FL 

Dr. Lee Fallon 

Law & Regulatory Compliance Conference 

September 7-8, 2013 — Fort Lauderdale, FL 

Mr. Albert Garcia 

FSH P 

House of Delegates, Chair and Executive Director are "Delegates" 

August 2, 2013 — Orlando, FL 

Dr. Michele Weizer 

NABP 

MPJE Item Development Workshop 

March 21-22, 2013 — Chicago, IL 

Mrs. Debra Glass 

NABP 
th Annual Meeting 

May 18-21, 2013 — St. Louis, MO 

Mr. Albert Garcia w/ Dr. Jeff Mesaros as the alternate 

The District III Meeting 

August 3-5, 2013 — Nashville, TN 

Mr. Albert Garcia 

Interactive Member Forum — Mr. Albert Garcia 

NABP Interactive Executive Officers Forum — Mr. Mark Whitten 

MALTAGON 

September 29 — October 1, 2013 — Ashville, NC — Mr. Albert Garcia 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flortda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Ronald 0. Nickel, R.Ph. 
537 Calico Retreat 
Mt. Pleasant, SC 29464 

RE: MAD-ID Continuing Education 

Dear Mr. Nickel: 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 24, 2014 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, February 11, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Convention Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. The meeting will begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh .state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444 ext: 3367. 

iay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Fiorida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 . FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
TWIUER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

Sinc 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARYIACV PAGE 02/60 

MAD-ID 537 Calico Retreat 

Mt. 1 South Carolina 29484 

,mad-irLorg 

RECEDVFID 

DEC i820j3 
December 15, 2013 lorida o( Pharmacy 

Department of Health, Board Pharmacy 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, AIIM C-04 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258 

Dear Colleagues: 

I am writing this letter and providing the attached information with the earnest and sincere hope that you 

will consider my request to approve for Consultant Pharmacist credit the MAD ID Making A Difference in Infectious 

Disease Pharmacotherapy program which occurred in Orlando, Florida on May 9-11, 2013. As I stated in my earlier 

letter ( November 7, 2013), I apologize for the tardiness of submitting the electronic data required for attaining the 

Consultant category , More importantly, I am appealing to you on behalf of about 5 Florida consultant 

pharmacists who attended the program on the assumption that Consultant credit would be provided. Because of 

my tardiness, their licenses are in jeopardy, so 1 am asking for your assistance in this matter. 

As I stated in the November letter, I would be willing to attend a Board meeting and personally "plead 

the case". I stated this in response to the message I received via CE Broker that such a personal appeal would be 

necessary. No indication was included In the CE Broker message as to when the next Board meeting would occur. 

I waited several weeks after sending the November letter, hoping for some response and perhaps further 
directions. I finally called the Board Office, and was able to speak with Ms. Malasha Norton. I inquired if my letter 
had been received and she indicated she had no knowledge of that letter. I requested to speak with Mr. Whitten 
since the letter was addressed to the Board) but was informed that he was no longer with the Board. Ms. Norton 
informed me that the next Board meeting was scheduled for some time in February and that I should resend all of 
the original documentatIon via fax or mail, with a clue date of Dec. 20. I have enclosed as much descriptive 
material as I hope will be helpful to the Board members and may facilitate the issuing of Consultant credit. 

Historically, the Board has approved for Consultant credit the same MAD ID program that they have 

approved for General Pharmacist credit The program faithfully followed the format and content of the 
previous s program. I sincerely hope that you can facilitate this matter so that the Florida pharmacists involved 
will be able to practice and apply the information attained via this program in the care of their fellow Floridians, 

Thank you in advance for any assistance you can render in this situation. Please inform me when and 
where the February meeting of the Board will occur, so I can prepare to attend in person or via conference call. 

Nickel, FkPh 

o 
CE Administrator, MAD ID 

The Meeting for Antimicrobial Stewardship 

Mi 
N iNFECTIOUS DISEASES I 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARYIACV PAGE 03/60 

MAD-ID - 537 Calico Retreat 

Mt. Pleasant, South ina 29464 

www. mad-id org 

November 7, 2013 

Department of Health- Board of Pharmacy 

4052 Bald Cypress Way Bin C-04 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258 

Dear Colleagues: 

I am writing this letter in response to your message of 8/22/2013, on CE Broker, pertaining to 
the MAD ID 2013 program Tracking # 20-403530, titled Making A Difference in Infectious Disease 

Pharmacotherapy. We had received approval for this program under the pharmacy" category 
but unfortunately submitted the request for "consultant category" credits after the program had been 

completed. I sincerely regret that I had overlooked sending the e-version of the required forms in a 

more timely manner. I assure you that the content and format of the 2013 program was very similar to 
the MAD ID programs your Board has approved for both General and Consultant credits in the past. 
However, your email message indicated that I appear before the Board, perhaps to better explain the 
program and answer questions. As a full time faculty of the College of Pharmacy of the Medical 
University of South Carolina, I was unable to attend a meeting due to a fairly full teaching schedule (I 
teach three compounding labs weekly). If indeed appearance before the Board would help resolve this 
approval matter, would it be possible to "attend "via a conference call? I do indeed apologize for 
submitting the required documents latw, but would like to resolve the issue primarily for the sake of a 

number of Florida pharmacists who attended with the hopes of receiving the special category of credit. 

Thank you in advance for considering this request. 

Sincerely, 

Ronald 0. Nickel, PhD 

CE Administrator, MAD ID 

The Meeting for Antimicrobial Stewardship 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 04/60 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY CONTINUING EDUCATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
Instructions 

1. The questionnaire is to be corn pieted and submitted by person(s) or organization(s) wishing to provide 
continuing education for Florida pharmacists for fulfillment of requirements under Chapter 465.009, FlorIda 
Statutes. 

2. Please tvDe o,prlnt legibly all responses and maintain a complete copy of the questionnaire in your filás. 

3. The amount of space for responses on the questionnaire is not intended to dictate the length of the response. 
Use additional paper if necessary for an accurate response and identify the question to which responses refer. 

4. It you are applying for approval of //AIDS programs it MUST INCLUDE FLORIDA LAW to be approved. 

ORGANIZATION MAD ID 

CONTACT NAME Ronald 0. Nickel 

1145 Windsorne Place 

CITY M , STATE SC ZIP CODE 29464 PHONE 

FAX 
E-MAIL ADDRESS 

, ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

NAME OF PROGRAM MAD 102013 Making A Diffarenpe, in Infectous DiseastEharmacy Theraov DATE May. 9- 
112013 
city , STATE Florida ZIP 

(a) Attach a copy of a sarnple of the program announcement or promotional piece utilized for the two most recent 
continuing education programs. 

(b) Indicate the number of CE hours and type requested: Live CE Home Study CE 

General 18 HIV/AlDS Order/Eval.Lab.Test Consultant Certification Quality Related Event 

Consultant Recertification 18 Law Medication Error Nuclear Immunization Course 
— Technician CE 

(c) Please describe the nature of the system used for the maintenance and availability of records of participation 
in continuing education activities. 
An on-line system was used by which the attendee each sgssion they allended , and also 

the content fotmat,and for Upon.çompletion of the program, the on-line 
data was use.d to Issue credits via CPE Monitor NABP) arid CE . 
(d) ATTACH A COPY OF THE PROGRAM. 

II. EDUCATIONAL CONTENT DEVELOPMENT 

1, Name of Program: MAD ID Making A Qi ference in Infe tous Disease 
2. List or attach the goals and objectives of your program submitted,______ 

III. EVALUATION: PlEASE A11'ACH A COPY OF THE EVALUATION INSTRUMENT FOR THIS 
PROCRAM. 

1. Describe the methods employed to evaluate the effectiveness of the providers programming and it's 
presentation. Please attach a sample of this evaluation that provide feedback of the group's attainment the 
learning objectives Earticipants of tb program were directed to use the on-line "syrvey" to evaluate each MAD iD 
session they attended. I have attached a sample of the resulfing npmerical as well as the fjee-text 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 05/60 

comments they provided. This Information not only L and reflect on the 2013 but plpyiciinq 
insight and information as plan the 2014 MAD IL) . 

IF ALL AREAS ARE NOT COMPLETED ThE APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504138982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 08/80 

Course Profile Page 1 of 1 

lila Automated Continuing Educntion (CE) Compliance Determine Lion Sfltrm 

CE CALL TOLL FREE V877-434..6323) 
Monday through Friday. LOG am till 5:00 pm EST 

Communication Center Couise Completion Information Updates/Additions Users Payment Into 
C�vtrilunicatlon Centeg Course Addition 

USER; RONALD 0. NtCKeL Cotitirluing Education Administrator, , INC 

Course required field) Learn More 

CJ.dcbere for Aooroved viper Course for your 
approved Boards. For Providers seeking Board epprovai, the application requirements often 
inciude attachments. Since the system wiii not save unfinished apotcations, please prepare 
atLaehmenb before begin ning the electronic appiication process. 

Course Name 
MAD ID 2013 MAKENG A DIFFERENCE TN 1 

Course Type * 
Anytime (Is not dater time or iocetion specific) 

(Select) 

(interaction with presenter/host) 

Conference (opportunity for interaction with presenter/host) 

Optional Comments 

for This three day program focussed on Infectious s) Disease Therapy, with a particular emphasis 
to 4000 characters on Antimicrobial Stewardship. As with the 

previous 15 "MAD " programs, participants 
benefit from listeniri; to and interacting with 

comments 
(For 

Please continue, only finished applications are saved. 
Piease note that any reference to Board means the Board or the Department where there is no Board. 

Florida Department of Health Ruie 64B-S.003,F.A,c Dil-MQA-CEB-2, May 2006 

Kernel Conditions of Use 
i 
Privacy Notice 6D Infomietion Systems of Fioriela, inc. 

httPs add course dtL.asp 12/16/2013 



Routes for approval when only Board approved. 54516-26.304, 
F.A.C. 

Effective 5/27/2010, if approved by the ACPE wilt count For 
General hours and will not route for approval. 64516-7,6.103(3) 
(C), F.A.C. 

8 hour course. Routes for approval. 64516-26.6012(2), 
F.A.C, 

12 hour Ourse. Routes ror approval. 64516-26.6012(1), 
P.A,C. 

Minimum 2 hour course. 64i316•26.103(1)(c) P.A.C. -routes for 
approval 

54B16-26.103(ij(a), F.A.C. 

ROutes for epprovai. 64515-26.320,F.A.C. 

l.asp 
. 12/16/2013 

1313 17:138 8584138982 

Profession Selection and Flours 
BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 07/80 

Page 1 of2 

Thp Completely Automatee Continuing EduCatiDn (CE) Compliance Determination System 

CE 
Monday through Fridat), &OO am tIU 5:00 pm EST 

Communication Center Course Completion Information Updates/Additions Users Payment Info 
. £Q i• Course Application 

USER: RONALD 0. NICKEL. Continuing Education Administrator, MAD-1D, INC 

Course Credit Renewal Hours 
Course Name: MAD ID 2013 MAKING A DIFFERENCE AN INFECTIOUS DTSEASE PHARMACYT1'IERAPV 
Boards for which you are registered — those that appear under Boards — are displayed. Enter the number 
of hours for which your Course may count toward each profession's renewal and disciplinary continuing education requirements. As an 
approved educational provider, it is your responsibility to submit hours in accordance with the Laws and Rules of each applicable 
profession. 

For each profession, input the number of renewal hours by subject a rea, assuming the course would be completed in full by the 
attendees, The Sum of the hours of each profession's subject areas must equal the total number Of hours a professional attending your 
course may count towards their license renewal requirements (exception; concurrent sessions). For exa mpie, if you enter 2 hours for 
Medical Errors and 4 hours for General, the total number of renewal hours for the course would be 6. 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

• Consultant Pharmacist 

in-Depth Analysis of Consultant Pharmacist MinImum 3 hour course. Routes for approval. 816-26.302, 
Practice F.A.C. 

General - Order and Evaluation of 
Laboratory tests Initial Certification - 3 Routes for approval. 64516-26.320, F.A.C. 
hours 

hour 

- 

Routes For approval. 64516-26.320, F.A.C. 

Quality Related Event (formerly mislilis) Mfflimum 8 hOur COursE. Routes for approval, 64616-266012(2) 

Laws and Rules of the Board Minimum 12 hour course. Routes for approval. 64516-25,6012(1), 

• Nuclear Pharmacist 

In-Depth Treatment of Nuclear Pharmacist 
Practice 

Quality Related Event (formerly mislills) 

Laws and Rules of the Board 

• Pharmacist 

Medication Errors 

HI V/Al OS 

General - Order and evaluation of 
Laboratory Tests initial Certification - 3 
hours 

t3eneral - Order and Evaluation of 
Laboratory Tests Reccrtlfication - 1 hour 

General 

Quality Related Event (formerly misfits) 

18 

for approval. 64615-26.320,F.A,C. 

64B16-26.601, P.A.C. 

Minimum 8 hour course. Routes for approval. 64516-25.6012(2), 
F.A.C. 



1313 17:138 8584138982 BOARD OF PHARMACY - PAGE 08/80 

Hgtps> Communication Center > Provldpr Course List 
lJSFit RONALD 0. NICKeL. COfltlflUiflO Education Administrator, MAD-ID, INC 

Course Inquiry Learn More 

To narrow your search, fill In below or enter the CR I5roker Course Tracking 

TO view aIlcourses,cllck 

To eicport a list of 211 actIve courses, click 

e aroker Course Tracking # 20- 403530 

Active 

Course Standing l All Other Statuses 

4 Not Approved ' by Provider ' tnactivated by e 61-oker 

Search by Course Name Expand 

Search by Profession/Subject Area Exjsnd 

Search by Course Type /Instructor/Provider Course Num ber ,and 
i:,5 

Course List 

CF Broker 
Course Name course lngs Roster(s) Course 

Tracking # fl iFIQ 

ID 2013 MAKINQ..&PIFFERENCE IN INFECTTDIJ&QJ$EASEH 20-403630 IERS VIew Not 
RHA12MCX ThERAPY Currentiy 

Approved 

Home i Condhl&i of Van i Privacy Notice 0 500.2013 Info retatlon Systems of Piorlda, Inc. 

https://www.cebrokcrcorn/providcr/pr course lstasp 12/16/2013 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAcE 09/60 

Documents provided 

A. The MAD lID programs are solely via the MAD ID website. The first 
attached document essentially includes the information provided on that website 
pertaining to the 2013 MAD ID program. 

B. The second document provides an outline of the three days' content with the Objectives 
for each session. 

C. The third document is an actual summary of the attendee's evaluation of each session 

of the 2013 MAD ID program. 

D. The fourth document records the free-text responses of attendees regarding what they 
benefitted most from the 2013 program and suggestions for content and format for 
future MAD ID programs./ 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504138982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 10/80 

2013 Meeting 
I 

MAD-ID Page 1 of2 

2013 Annual Meeting 

Horms 2013 Annual MaeUrrg Antimicrobial Steworctshlo Progrsrns Momberahip Contact 

2013 Arirual Meeting 

genda 

Prograni learning Objectives 

Hotel, Trnvei & Shuttle 

Scientific Committee 

Proqrem FeoultylSpe,ekera 

& Pastors 

Conypuinc !ducal.ion Credit 

Coriaboralkig 

Syinposie 

Sponsoririf Crgsnizetiona 

Sporreorsiop OpporLunilits 

Contact Lie 

Moo-to i prtv"* mrundc of roqlntivtl art toes with 
wri Inert /ce atitzt,,cellatlon by l 9, 2012 (.90 

to meeting), loss o 240 odrniniatretipn , 
Z1f/or April 2 2013 rngistration tees re non- 

MPiC.lC) is an approved providor and automatically 
reporta to the Boord of Pharmacy via F Orokor for 
Prpnid.s pharmacists, 

http -id .org/20 13 -mad-i d-annual-meeting/ 0 13 

A DIFFERENCE 
IN DISEASES PI-IAAMACOTHEIIAPY 

The 11i Annual MAD.ID Meeting will he ld at 

the Marriott World Center In Orlando Florida, May 9 4! 
-11, 2013. Plnafntscists physicians, and cuter 

providers will be gIvert tho opportunity to participate 
in a oducetionel symposium ically 
deerpred to apply rhodrt S to patient care 
ard antimicrobial stewardship while earning 1,8 

CEu Ipharmucyl. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 11/60 

Annual MAO-il) Meeting 

May 9— 1,2013 
Prog ran Agenda 

'AASr' denotes an Advanced Antimir.robial Stewardship Program session (entire program constitutes X hours 

1.8 !) 
Registration 

Stewardship C:rassroorn #1: (I hour, repeated): The Art oFthe Antibiogram (AASP) 

.4CPE Program 0485-0000-13-001-L.0F-P (1.0 Comae: Hou;) 
Speaker: John A. lossn. Pliarm, a 
Stewardship Classroom /2: (1 hour, repented): Practical </PD (AASP) 

ACPE Program 0485411100- 13-002-Mi-P (1.0 Comae: Flour.) 

Jason M. I'ogueYharm.D. 

in Exhibit Flail 

Welcome and Opening Remarks 

Keynote: Antimicrobial Stewardship: The CDCs Perspective (AASP) 

A (FE Program 0485-0000- i-P (1.0 Contact 110111) 

Speaker: Arjun Srinivasan. . 
Lunch en owoor REMPEX Satellite Symposium 

What's the Poop on C'iosiridilirn YUfl? /c 'Infec.tioii in 

(7'S Program -tO I-P (1.0 Contact Flour) 
Speaker: Kevin W, Carey. J'harm. 1).. MS. 

impact of New Technologies on Antimicrobial Stewardship: is it Really.Faster? (AASP) 
Ac'PE Program IO-13-0O5-L0l-P (1.5 Contact Hours) 

Topic 1: Rapid Diagnostics 

Speaker: Kerry L. LaPlante. Pharm.D, 

Topic 2: The Microbiologist-Pharrnaeist Relationship: Married. Separated or Divorced? 
Speaker: Paneholi Ph.D. D(AI3MM) 

Scientific Poster Session in Exhibit FlaIl 

eception 
c:ontinental Breakfast In Exhibit Hall 

Stewardship Classroom (I hour. repeated): 
Stewardship Metriesmat.iustifv Your Job (AASP) 

ACPE Program 0485-0000- 13-0O6-L 04-P (1.0 l Flour) 
Speaker: an MacDougalL l'harm.D.. MA S 

Stewardship Classroom #4: (1 hour, repeated): 
To he on Form irlary or not to he on Form ulary, Thai is the Question (AASP) 

.4CPC Program 0485-0(100-13-00 7-L 04-P (1.0 Contact Hour) 
Speaker: Susan 1.. Davis. Pharm,lj, 

Break in ! 
Antimicrobial Stewardship in Pediatrics (AASP) 

(7'S Program 0485-0000-13-008-L01-p (1.5 Contact lours) 
Topic 1 A rum icrob a I Slewardsli p f i i e Pad fatrie Pope lotion; i al en ges and Oppoi-tunit ies 

Speaker: G. Newlard. ).. MPCI 

Tupic Zx Peclial.ric P1</PD Appi eations 

Speaker: ly 1). Maples. Pharm.D. 
12:00 pni -.. I :30 pin Lunch on own 

i 
am — 8:3(1 am 

8:30 an: — 10:30 am 

I (1:30 am— 11:00 am 

I l:OOam — II:15 am 

11:15 am— ]2:ISpm 

1215 pm— 1:45 pin 

2:0(1 pm — 3:00 pro 

3:I)Ppni—4;3Opm 

5:00 pm — 6:30 pro 

6:30 pm — 8:00 pm 

Friday. May .19,.2013 

7:00 am — 8:0(3 am 

8:00 am — 10:00 am 

0:00 tro — I 0:3o ani 

0:30 am — 12:00 pm 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD PHARMACY PAGE 12/60 

1 :30 pm - 3:00 pm Stewnrdshtp Ironi the Industry Perspective (AASP) 

4 CPE Program 04854000-13-009-1 04-P (1.3 Contact Hours) 
Topic I: New Antibiotic Discovery and ]s it the Sineer. Song. or Both? 

Michael N, Dailey. Pharm.D. 

iopic 2: .Anifmicrobial Ste\¼ardsh ip: the impact 

Speaker Jack i. 'Brown. Jr. Pharm.D.. MS 

3 :00 pm 3:30 pun Break in Exhibit Hail 

3 30 pm — 5:00 pm PK/PD in Special Populations (co-sponsored by SIDP) 

.4CPII Program 13-010-L0l-P (1.5 Contact 
Wopie I: Dosing in Obesity: Finding the Holy Scale" 

Speaker: Man,junath P. L Pharm, D, 

Topic 2: Drog Dosiug in the Critically Ii 

Spcnkcr: Keith A. Rod void, l'ha rm .13. 

5 :00 pm 6:00 pm What Did you Miss Because There Was No Funding to Attend the infectious I)iscases Meetings 

.4 ('FE Program 0485-0000-13-011-104-P (1.0 Contact Hour,1 

Speaker 8 I : Kerry L. LaPlante. Pharm.D. 

Speaker #2: Mare I-I. Scheetz, Pharrn.D., MSc. y, May 11,2013 

7:00 am — 8:00 am Continental Breakfast in Exhibit Hall 

8:00am— 9:30 am Issues in the Treatment of Respiratory Infections 

ACRE Program 0483-0000-/3-012-L0J-P (1.5 Contact Hours,l 

Topic I: Respiratory Peneiral:ic.in cifAnl:ibiuties 

Speaker: .4, R odvold, Ph arm. P. 

Topic 2: InHaled Antibiotics: Ftief:s, Myths and Questions We Arc Afraid to Ask 

Speaker: Michael N, Dudley. Pharm,D, 

9:31) am 0:00 am Updates from the -ED Research Network 

ACRE Program 0485-0(700- 13-013-L04-P (0.5 Contact Hour) 
Speakers: Susan .. Davis, Pharm,D, and Marc 1-I, Seheeta, Pharm.IJ., MSc. 

10:00 am — 10:15 am Break in Exhibit Hall 
10:13 am — ll:4Sam Meet the Professors 

.4CPE Program 14-L01-P (1.5 Contact flours) 
John it ]3osso, Pharm.D. 

Debra A. Go IT, l'harrn, 1), 

Kerrv 1.. LaPiante. Pharrn.D. 

cotiaii MacDougall. Pharrn.D,. MAS 

Jason Ci. Newlund, M.D. MLd 

Keith A. Roclvi,kl. Pharm.fl. 

11:45 am -- 1:15 pm Managing Funga I ctions (AAS P) 

ACrE Program -0000-13-0 15-LO -P (1.5 Contact Hours) 
Topic I: An Antifungal tJpdnte: Focus on Sehinocandins 

Speaker: Kennel lit, Rolsion. M.D. 
i'npic 2; The Role ol Lahorator tesi ing in Managing Fungal Inteetions 

Speaker: Kevin W. Carey. Pliarm.D., MS. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD PHARMACY PAGE 13/60 

MAD-ID 13 

PROGR,SMMATIC LEARNING OBJECTiVES 

an l I.cndcc of MAD—IT) 2013. 1 will be able to n up Ui I, Conlinihng Edueitkm hours, At the conclusion oI'th{s 
RClivity_ you shutilrj he able 

1. Li.ct the acceptable rulex for cnnstructing a ana(i':es usccrptihi/itv data cinci describe pu/ails in use and 
.cf?utegies avoid them. 

2. /we q;tinzired p/;a.rmacodvnamics r/antimir.'ra/i/q/.y and denwnstrotv pro/ic:cnc.' with d 
dnwgc tnten design, 

I ar'rrpied m u/are v-uvtrii n(new aruh,nicroiiial agents. 

4. List and describe at ma/or papers presented ! in/hc/iorLs disease Fneet,ngrs n the last 12 

_1. List shni/arities and distingulsit nces pediatric and adult pharmac'rx/ynrcmtcs closing applications. 
6. Demonstrate the a vcrnietv n/ .newr.rc/s/iif; metrics int could be used in iring stewardship 
e If d lies. 

7. Stoic the broad purposes. nod areas a/success c/stewards/np programs as in the pcdtcttnic 

a/at on. 

rS, tat hoc/c changes in phormacokineths o(antinzicrohtai.v as.cooioted with ohesirt and/tow the,t' are accom,;;odcited in 

dosing i 
9. List ra/c changes in pharinacokinetics a/antimicrohio/.s associated with critical i//ness and how they are accomninjdated 

in r/osn;g lust tnents. 

JO. Describe ivayy in which the pharmaceutical indusby ii;cçy support ind participate in stewardship x. 
ii. List and analyze ways the current re,euiat t environtnw'nt /f ls opment c/new ant itnierabcals. 

/2 AppraIse the ive co'jtrthnaians a/rapid diagnostics and the microbiology lab, in general, to stewc.rdship programs. 

3. App/v data reflecting pulmonary pcnet;'afthn antihtolic.i and efftcacy /nba/S cintihiotics to the rape ut/c dec/sian 
ma/ilng In repwd Ia puhnonarv in/ictions. 

14. State the recent advances in knrnvlcrige oft Josti-idiwn difflcde infections as we/i as prevention and 
treatment. 

15. ibe propel utdrrcaian qfIahrnratory' rests tn IttandlItjillu!nt qf fungnil infeereons. 

/6. the proper role aIechinocandiizc in the ce-mancentariwn. 

1 ir:Iik 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 14/60 

Program Eaculty /Speakcrs 

John A. Bosso, FCCP. ROSA 

lessor 

an c:at'ol urn c:oilege of Phsirniacy & Medical Tin ivcrsfr. of South C'nrol n ol' Medicine 
C_.Thnrlc5hln, s_: 

lack Brown, PIiarmD,MS 
/\ooeiaic Ii'oienscir 

S TINY Buffalo & 
)Iectious Disease Pharnpicist Specialist 

I.Jiiivcr'sily ui Rochester Medical Center 

3"Fthlo. NY 

an L. Davis, PliarmO 

foes Diseases Pharmacy Specialini 

rienry Ford Hospital & 
? l Professor 

W'avne le ) i iversity 

Ddrcit. l 
N. Dudley, PharmD 

Senior Vice President. R & 0 and ChieF Scientific Officer 

Phorimweutieals 

San Diego. CA 

Kevin W. 1 
Associate i'rotessor & Chuir 

Vu iversity of Houston CoIIegc oF Pharmacy 

if) 1,1 SIP!). IX 

Debra A. Goff, Pharmi) 
CI efI Associate ProFessor 

Ohio State I Jniversity 

infectious Disease Specialist 

Ohio Stoic Tjnivcrsity Medical Center , Ia ! bus, 1-i 

Kerry Ti. L7Plante, PharrnD 
laic Proicasor 

ii n ivcruiiv oF Rhode island & 
Ad,j Llt!ct (?Iiiiicnl ProFessor 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 15/60 

Aipcrt Medical School of Brown Univci-.sitv 

I'nividence. RI 

C:onan MaciJougall, Pharmfl 
/-'\aociatc Pro [ 
University at San isco 

Fraiieisco. C:A 

Holly 1). Maples, Pliarmj) 
Professor 

I_JAMS — College of Pharmacy 

,itl!c Rock, AR 

Janon - Newland,MD, MEd 

l)irsctor. Antimicrobial Program. Medical Director oiPatic!lt Sal'ci and Systems Reliability. Childrcifs Mercy 

Hoipitals & Clinies Associate Professor of Pediatrics. University of i-Kansas City School of Medicine 
Kansas City, MC) 

Nisrijunath P. Pal, PharmD 

A ssodatc Professor 

Albany College of Pharmacy & Health Sciences 

NY 

Prctti PancholL PhD, D(ABM1'1) 

Director, Clinical Microbiology. Associate Professor, Clinical Pathology 

Ohio Slide University Medical Center. I.Jniversity Hospital East 

Columbus, OFF 

Jason M. Pogue, PInrmD 
Ciinical Plnarmncist. Infectious Diseases 

I )ciro i , Medical Center 

Detroit. Ml 

Keii:Iu A, Rodvoki, Pharmi) 
Pro !èsso 

Co liege of I 'harm ) 
tJnivcrsi iy ol Illinois at Chicago 

(.'hicsgo, I, 

Kenneth V. Roiston, MO 
Pro tes.sor 

MD Anderson Cancer Center 

I—button. IX 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 16/60 

Michael J- Pharmfl. Mr}•I, FCCP, FJDSJ\ 

ol Pliarniaey & Mccheine & 

Director. Anti—inFbctivc 

Wayne State Jniversitv 

F)el oil, d F 

Marc -I. ShceE2, , MSc 

Professor 

leF d western Liii ivcrsitv 

C?h ieflE!O. I F. 

un .Srinivasan, MD, FSIIEi\ 
Associale Director Flealthcurc Infection Programs 

Division ci 1-Icaitheare Quality Promotion 

Centers for Disease COOLDOF and Prevention 

GA 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 17/60 

Accreditation Information 

) is accredited by the Acci-cdilutinn Council Fur Pharrnncy Pduc;:ainr as flue provider oFeontinuing pharmacy education. 

K por( 
Th CL 

is an spprovad pi-ov idor and automatically reports earned dit 
to NAPT3 through Cl'E Monitor anti Broker tot Florida phermacists. 

Annual Meeting Programming represents up to 15 eorrtact hours (F .8 CEF_I) or continuing pharmacy education. 

All grievances regarding any aspect m sponsored or cosponsored program should be brought to the attention of the Continuing 
Education Director. Ronald Nickel PhD. l.com. 

Continuing Pharmacy Education (CPE) Credit will he awarded upon your ava,ltiatiori of attended sessions. Your earned OPE 

ercdit will be automatically reported to NAB /ACE through the naw CPE Monitor system. Attendees should evaluate sessions 

attended and claim CT. credit online at by 19. 2013 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 CF PNE 18/60 

Sponsoring Organizations 

The Officers and Scientific Committee Members of MAD-ID which to acknowledge the 
generous support from the follow organizations which have supplied unrestricted educational 
&ants i the proThsaionsj education component of the 2013 Annual Meeting: 

Pfizer. Inc 

Merck 

Cubist Pharmaceuticals 

VimPharma, Too 

Optirner Pharmaceuticals, Inc 

Meeting Exhibitors 

Nanosphere ! PrePen Optimer 

Cepheld risolutlons 

Cubist TheraDoc 

Forest Pharmaceuticals Truven 

Merck 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 19/60 

The Scientific Committee 
John A- Basso, Pliarmfl, FCC?, FIDSA 
I'roiesscir and Chair 

Si,udi Carolina College of Pharmacy — M LSt: c:a.mpus 

F' lass or of Med d C C 

f)ivisinri Infectious Disease 

c:o!leae of Medicine l t;nversitv IrISOUtFi Carolina sc 
Click to view Dr. Bosso's biography 

Dr. Rosso earned his flachclor of Science in Pharmacy and Doci:or of l'haririacy degrees from the State University of New York 
at Buffalo. F—Fe is Prolbssor end Chair. Department o:fClinical Pharmacy & t)ui:comcs Sciences. South Carolina College of 

Pharmacy. MUSC Campus and Professor of Medicine in the Divisfon of Infectious Diseases at le Medical Lniversity of South 

Carolina in Charleston, South Carolina, Dr. F3osso tilso serves as a Clinical Specialist in Infectious Diseases, antI lie is board 

certified ii Pharmacotherapy with added qualifications iii Infections Diseases, 

F-I is research interesis focus on anti"infective pharmacoFdneties. pharrmieodynaiii ancF efficacy in both pediatric and odult 
patients. Dr. Basso hss published articles in /'ha;-eiacn//irnvipit A#oirntcr'oh,o/ /:tgenr.c cad f.77c;rrotherapv, 7'hc Journal o/ 
In,fi'CliOtLs Dfrraves. The Pediatric /i/ktiouc Dfreare .Jnzrrncil, Diagnostic Lfici'dbio/ogv mid Inject ions Disease. /cal s ca c. and The .Jouninl qf Infèc//rius 0/ceases He has written chapters for textbooks that include o rinocotherapic it Pothriplaycfa/ogicdpproacft. The Phorniacothei-e;pv Program. and The Textbook of 
Redidtr'k ectious Diseases, F-ic is a mciii her of the editorial hoards of,4 rs/imicrob/a( /lRcnts l C.laetraotherapv. 

and The ournal of air/c Phw'ntaco/ogv and Therapeutics. 

Dr. Russo has been active in a number ol'prof'essional organizations, and was a founding member and a past—president of'the 
Society of In lèeriotps Diseases hai'macjst,c, and e past—president of the American College of Clinical Pharmacy. 

Debra A. Gaff, rnarmD, ? 
In I' nus Disease Specialist 

Cli a leaF Associate Professor 

The Ohio State University Medical Center. Columbus. OF-F 

Click to view Dr. Goff's biography 

'. Gull 15511 Infectious Disease Specialist and Director of he Fri I'eetious Diseases residency program at The Ohio State 
University Medical Center (OSUMC), She received her l3uchelor of Pharmacy cleg.rec'. Doctor cr1 Pharmacy degree. and 
eonipletecl her pharmacy residency at the University or Illinois in . ii'. (jolts research interests incluirlç antimicrobial 
i'esi5tancç, clinical outcomes research. antifungals. and innovative ways to educate using technology. 
She so member of the OSt.JMC Antimicrobial Stewardship Program. and is actively involved in developing sti'ategies 10 control 
the esettlating i-ate of antimicrobial resistance. The teian manages both eOrtiniun:ty—acqu irod and healtheare—associatcd infections. 
She recently developed a medical "app" called STAB—IT i ourcus ba.ctcremia — is terrible) i:n help educate clinicians at 
CISUMC on the management oh patients with .S'/rrp/r ucus hacterem a. Di'. ColT is the fist medical educator in conduct a 

workshop liii Mcdical apps (hr t—Iealthca.re Professionals: Using die ilad cr at the Appicia satre in Cnlumhus. Oil. 
She has recnived numerous research grants arid has lectured hotit nationally and internationally. Dr. Guilbas published in several 
poLisials, including C/fir/rat infectious x Mr,nicinc. c:'nrresax m in Thf irrt/nt,s 
Dixeasns, and low-oaf of hot/on. 
Dr. is active nieiither of lirfectiotis Diseases Society Of Aniei'ica, American ('allege of' Clinical harn,acy American 
Society for Microbiology. Society of Infect us Disease Pharntacisis, anti a board member of' the National Foundation or 
inlèetiuus Diseases, When slit' 5 not working. Dr. !' can be found doing trini hlons and photography. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD PHARMACY PAGE 20/60 

Keith S. <aye, MD, MPH, FTDSA, FSHEA, FACP 
Pro lessor of lvi ed peine 

Corporate cd icLil Director. I lospital FpiLIeIn iology anti Antini ic'rubial Stewardship 

Detroit Medical Center anti Wayne State l_lniversity. Detroit, Ml 
Click to view Dr Kayes biography 

Dr. K aye reec I vcd his medical degree h'oni lie Un i Ni I y (11 Pennsylvania and completed hi in lain n I medici lie residea cy and an 

infectious diseases Iellowsliip at ael Octicoti Medical Center iii 13o.ston. MA. Di.iriag his fellowship. Dr. Kaye eiirned ti 

Masters degree I Public l—teallli from the Harvard School of Public I Ieaith. lie is hoard certified in infectious diseasea, 

Or, Kne's particular clinical interests and ski Is are infections in the elderly. intravascular catheter—related inkctions. 
epidemiology of and Outcomes associated with niultidrug resistant bacteria, risk adjustment. prevcnl:ion risk factors and 

outcomes related to surgical site nice ans anti in fected prosthetic devices. ant iniicrobial resistance and infection control i55LIC5 in 

n 1 it f lv hospitals and tertiary en re hasp i this. and an time robial stewardship. 

H is principle research areas of interest include hospital—acquired infections, hospita? epidemiology, infections in the elderly. 

antirri icrohial resistance, surgical site infection, hinoclstreom in lèetion. and antibiotic utilization, lie is currently studying 

hospital-acquired infections in the elderly with partial fending far a career development giant from the National Institutes i 
I—lea , 
Dr. Kaye has authored OvCr 60 peer-reviewed articles and 5 book chapters and has presented numerous abstracts at national 

conferences, 

Jason Newlanci, , MS 

Director, Ani.imierohial Stewardship Program and 

Di rector, Fvidence-basecl Practice 

Children's Mercy Hospital. Kansas City. MD 

Click to view Dr. Newland's biography 

Dr. Newiund grew up in southwest Oklahoma, and obtained his 13,5, iii Pre—prafessional studies at the l.iniversity oCNoti'e Dame 

in l99d and medical degree froit the University ol'Cklahorna College of Medicine in 2000, 1-la completed pediatric residency at 

the University af'Nebraska/Crcighton Medical Centers in 2003 and fellowship in diatric infectious diseases a. the Children's 
Hospital of Philadelphia in 2006. distinguishina himself with teachino awards at both the resident and Fellow level, 

In August. of2OtlO, he ioinecl the faculty at Children's Marcy l—iunpilals & Clinics in Kansas City. Missouri where he is the 

director 0.1: te antimicrobial stewardship program and the director of evidence-based practice. An active arid faculty 
mentor. he recently completed his master's in education through a. Joint progran-i oft'ei-ed r the Cincinnati Children's Hospital 

Medical Center and lie University of' Cincinnati College of Ecltica.iion, focusing on adult learning. e.urricu.ulum and teaching 

methods, and medical education evaluation and research, 

1-1 is current research spotlights the use of anti ni icrohials and the impact ol a.n antirnicrohial stewardship program at a ehildrcWs 
hosprtat, Aclditionally he is inicrcstcd in the impact of clinical practice guidelines on die care at children, Finally lie has 

developed mobile apps a lurther enhance the delivery of guidel inca In he practicing clinician. 

Joseph A. PharmD, FCCP 
Director. Outcomes Research 

cPL Associates, LLC 

Din I Profhssor 

tJniversit at, t3utDttu School of Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical S ciences, 13u1Th,lo. NY 
Click to view Or. 's biography 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 21/60 

Dr. Palaclino cornpleled a Ruehelur ficienec dearec in biology from Sicna College in Allisny. New Ynrk. earned his pharmacy 
degree Iron the Massachusetts College of . and received a Doctor of Pharnnes degree from the Medical (Jnivcrsitv of 

Soc hi Carolina. lii s interests i id ode cliii cal trials if anti m ci gen 1s. and outcomes analysts. specifically 

pharniacoecononics and pharmacoepicleio ilogy. 

tIe is C nnsu ii j ne Editor of ii nieni her of the ccl itoria I board of Sw'gica/ and a rev ie'yer for v 
journals, including (Jirricai i cifoits Dtscosi's, .'trciiive.s o/fntoi'ncil Phnrnicicoptwpopy. borne! ilndmici'ohkrl 
C/renwlherapy\ Drugs, 4 rtim;crohial and Chc'ororheropr'. .Joui-ool ' fnf&c/icii.s Diseosesand A ncr/con I iw / of 
Jleci/rh—Systems Pharmacy 

Or, Paladino has authored more thnn IOU publications in peer—reviewed joiirmils and several book chapters. ilis l 
memberships include llioclious Diseases Society of America, American ly ' Microbiology. Society of infectious Diseases 

Pharmacists. American College of Clinical Pharmacy. tmd In lernational Society for Pha.rmacocconomics and Outcomes 
R eseerc It, 

Dr. Palaclino has Peetured in 30 coirntrics. trained eleven fellows, and has served as a sabbatical host fbi' phariitacy 
and medical practitioners, fellows, and students from Cicnnany. .Scoiland, and Russia. lie has received numerous scholarships 

a Fellow of'the American Cloltege ofClinica.l Pharmacy. the 1998 Excellence in Research 
Award of the International Socielv for Pliarmaeoeconomics and Outcomes Rcseai'eh. and inclusion in Who Is Who in the World. el .1. Rybak, , FCCP 
Associate Dean for Research 

Professor ol' Pharmacy and Medicine 

Dirceto r, Anti-Inibetive Research Lahoratory 

Eugene Applebaum College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences. Wayne State Univci'sity. Detroit. M.I 

Click to vIew Dr. Rybak's biography 

Dr. Ryhak is Associiufç Dean for Research and Professor of Pharmacy at the Eugene Applehaum College oiPharniacy and Health 
Sciences IS), F-Ic is also tan Adjunct Pi'ofessor of Medicine in the Division of' Infectious Diseases at the School of 
Medicine at Wayne State University in Detroit. Michigan, Dr. Rybak is Director of the Anti-Infective Research Laboratory at 
EACPI-lS, and is affiliated whh Detroit Receiving l-lospital and t lniversil:y Ith Center. 

I-Ic d his undergraduate degree in Pharmacy froi,i Northeasteni I.Jnivc-rsity in Boston. Massachuset:r_s. his Phannfl trnni the 
College of Phermacy and i-Ieall:h Sciences arid his MPH nn the School of Medicine , Wayne State t.fniversity. 

Dr. R haks primary research locus is anriniierohia.t pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynarnics K/PD) and their relationship to 
bacterial resistance, 1-Ic has poblished several chapters arid articles in seientiiic journals on topics such as 
ant:niierobitl PKIPD and resistance to antimicrobial agents. the importance of bactericidal drugs. and the assessment of patient 
Outcome as it relates to antiniicrohitrl resistance issues, Dr. Ryhak is the Scientific Field Editoi' for tile Diseases section 
Of Pharmacoiherapv. and serves Os an cditoi'iaf reviewer fbi' a number of ocher sciantific puhlicsiions, 

Flu is a mciii icr i.if severs.! pruliossional societies, including the American College of Cliii cat Pbaniiacy, the American Society of 
lea ltli—Sysicm Pharmacists. Ihe Soc ictv nt in Ihe; i is Diseases Ph arnnac i Society for M icu—ohiology. and 1 lie us e Society lAnierica.. 

lack 1. Sobel, , FEDSA 

Professor of 

Chief. Division of Infioctious Diseases 

Deparu'ncnr of Internal Medicine 

Wayne Stare Llniversitv School of Mci.liainc , Medical Center, Detroit. I 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 22/60 

Click to view Dr. Sobel's biography 

Dr. Sobel received hk inedictil degree from the University of Winvatersrand in . Sooth Africa. He conipleteci his 

residency in internal medicine ni Johannesburg. and tsrael, and a fcllewsh p in in diseases at the National Institute 

of Allergy Hnd Inleetious Diseases/National InstItiLtes of llealth. in flethesthu Maryland. ard the Nieclical College of 
in Philadelphia. 

Dr. Sobel considers hirnselt'a candiclologist rather than a gCncru] niveologist. His primal) clinical interests relate 10 

eandidiasis and candidernia. and superficial inleetions caused by Candida. I-ic as written extensively and perlormed research For 

ninny years in the field cr vulvovagimitil candidiasis. Dr. Sohel also has an interest in urinary ecindiditisis and cant ices to focus 

It i.s el in ical and laboraton' research in both these forms of superficial cand icliasis. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 23/60 

Making a Difference in Infectious Diseases Pharmacotherapy th 
Annual MAD-ID Meeting 

May 9—11, 2013 

Program Agenda 

NOTE: 'AASP" denotes an Advanced Antimicrobial Stewardship Program session 
(entire program constitutes 18 hours CE) 

Thursday. May 9, 2013 

6:30 am 8:30 am Registration 

8:30 am — 10:30 am The Art of the Antibiograrn (AASP) 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-0O1-LO1-P (1.0 Contact Hour) 

Stewardship Classroom #1: (1 hour, repeated) 

Moderator: Debra A. Goff, Pharm.D. 

Speaker: John A. Bosso, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. State the basic rules/guidelines for construction of an antibio gram 
2. List limitations in the clinical use and interpretation of antibiograms 
3. Analyze susceptibility date to produce customized entibio grams 

Practical PKIPO (AASP) 
ACPE Program 1-P (tO Contact Hour) 

Stewardship Classroom #2: (1 hour, repeated) 

Moderator: Michael J. Rybak, Pharm.D., M.P.H. 

Speaker: Jason M. Pogue, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. State the advantages and limitations of applying 1K/PD principles to patient 
therapy 

2. Describe a patient scenario where the use of prolonged beta-lactarn infusion is 
appropriate 

3. Summarize how the pr/nc/pies used in practice for amino glycoside and 
vancomycin PK/PD can be applied to other drug classes 

10:30 am — 11:00 am Break in Exhibit Hall 

1 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 24/60 

11:00am— 11:15 am Welcome and Opening Remarks 

11:15 am — 12:15 pm Keynote: Antimicrobial Stewardship: The CDC's Perspective 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-003-LO1-P (1.0 Contact Hour) 
(AASP) 

Moderator: Michael J. Rybak, Pharm.D., M.P.ft 

Speaker: Arjun Srrnivasar'i, u 
Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: . Summarize the COG's view on the impact of antimicrobial resistance on health 

care 
2. Review the initiatives that the COG is involved with to address this issue 
3. Provide an overview of the COC'S Smart for Healthcare Program" 

12:15 pm — 1:45 pm Lunch on own or REMPEX Satellite Symposium 

2:00 pm — 3:00 pm What's the Poop on Clostridium difficile Infection in 2013? 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-004-LO1..P (tO Contact Hour) 

Moderator: John A. Bosso, Pharm.D, 

Speaker: in W. Garey, ,D., M.S. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to; 

1. Discuss the state-of-the-art knowledge on the epidemiology and cYnical 
syndrome of C. diffidile infection 

2 Provide a therapeutic treatment p/an for C. diffici/e infection that minimizes the 
risk of recurrence 

3. Describe emerging therapies for the treatment of C. difficile infections 

3:00 pm — 4:30 pm Impact of New Technologies on Antimicrobial Stewardship: 
is it Really Faster? (AASP). 
ACPE Program -P (1.5 Contact Hours) 

Moderator: Debra A. Goff, Pharm,D. 

Topic 1: Rapid Diagnostics 

Speaker: Kerry L LaPlarite, Pharm.D, 

2 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 25/60 

Learning Objectives: 
IJpon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. State the relationship between rapid diagnostic tests and antimicrobial 
stewardship 

2. Review the various rapid diagnostic tests now available to identify bacterial and 
fun gal pathogens 

3. Give examples from the literature on how these tests have impacted 
antimicrobial stewardship efforts 

Topic 2: the Microbiologist-Pharmacist Relationship: 
Married, Separated or Divorced? 

Speaker: TBD 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Describe the role of the clinical microbiologist as part of the antimicrobial p team 
2. Explain the laboratory tests regularly performed by the microbiology laboratory 
3. Review the importance of appropriate interpretation of susceptibility testing, 

selective reporting and the use of antibio grams 
4. Provide examples of partnering with clinical microbiology to assist in antimicrobial 

stewardship efforts 

5:00 pm — 6:30 pm Scientific Poster Session in Exhibit Hall 

6:30 pm 8:00 pm Welcome Reception 

Friday, May . 2013 

7:00 am — 8:00 am Continental Breakfast In Exhibit Hall 

8:00 am — 10:00 am Stewardship Metrics That Justify Your Job (AASP) 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-006-L04-P ('1.0 Contact Hour) 

Stewardship Classroom #3; (1 hour, repeated) 

Moderator: Debra A. Goff, Pharm.D. 

Speaker: Conan MacDougall, Pharm.D, MAS 

Learning Objectives; 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Identify three levels of antimicrobial use to measure utiflzation 
2. Given a dataset of antimicrobial use, calculate defined daily doses and days of 

therapy per thousand patient-clays 
3. Identify two strategies for putting antimicrobial utilization data in context for 

interpretation 

3 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 26/60 

To be on Formulary or not to be on Formulary, 
That is the Question (AASP) 
ACPE Pm gram 0485-0000-13-007-L04-P (1.0 Contact Hour) 

Stewardship Classroom #4: (1 hour! repeated) 

Moderator: John A. Bosso, Pharm,D. 

Speaker: Susan L. Davis, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to; 

1. Relate health-system formule,y process to the goals of antimicrobial stewardship 
2. Analyze antimicrobial drug characteristics and institutional priorities to develop 

appropriate drug use policies and/or restrictions 
3. Create a plan for educating clinicians about formu/aiy guidelines and polices 

10:00 am — 10:30 am Break in Exhibit Hall 

10:30 am — 12:00 pm Antimicrobial Stewardship In Pediatrics 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-008-LO1-P (1.5 Contact Hours) 
(AASP) 

Moderator: Michael J. Rybak, Pharn.D., M.P.H. 

Topic 1: Antimicrobial Stewardship in the Pediatric Population: 
Challenges and Opportunities 

Speaker: Jason G. Newlarid, M.D., MEd 

Learning Objectives; 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Describe the impact guidelines have on antimicmbial use both in the hospital and 
the ambulatory setting 

2. List the features required of a good clinical guideline 
3. List the methods and challenges of implementing a guideline 

Topic: 2 Pediatric PK/PD Applications 

Speaker: Holly B. 1 Pharm.D. 
Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. List basic P1</PD differences in the pediatric patient that would necessitate 
different /hg 

2. State existing practices for /PD dosing in children that have been validated 
and described in the literature 

4 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 27/60 

3. Propose PD dosing practices that have been established in adult patients that 
could be adapted for pediatric use 

12:00 pm — 1:30 pm Lunch on own 

1:30 pm 3:00 pm Stewardship from the Industry Perspective 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-009-L04-P (1.5 Contact Hours) 
(AASP) 

Moderator: John A. Bosso, .D. 
Topic 1: New Antibiotic Discovery and Development: 

Is it the Singer, Song, or Both? 

Speaker: Michael N. Dudley, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Outline the steps in antibiotics drug disco very and development and identiñy 
"critical path" activities 

2. Describe the problems with new target drug discovery programs and 
development of resistance, and recent examples of failures 

3. Contrast the obstacles for the discovery of new agents directed to Gram-negative 
vs. Gram-positive bacteria 

4. Discuss recent regulatory changes and incentives to stimolate antibiotic 
development 

Topic 2: Antimicrobial Stewardship: Measuring the Impact 

Speaker Peggy Mckinnon, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Describe endpoints that may be measured to understand the impact of 
stewardship pm grams and understand utility and limitations of various 
appmaches 

2 Explain the confounding and bias that may be evident in evaluating the 
relationship between antibiotic treatment and outcomes 

3. Describe potential methods that may assist clinicians in appropriately evaluating 
outcomes due to various treatments or intervention 

3:00 pm — 3:30 pm Break in Exhibit Hall 

3:30 pm — 5:00 pm lC/PD in Special Populations 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-O1O-Lo1-p (1.5 Contact Hours) 

Moderator: Michael J. Rybak, Phern,D., 

5 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 28/60 

Topic 1 Dosing in Obesity: Finding the "Holy Scale" 

Speaker: Amit P. Pal, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

Describe the effects of body size descriptors on the estimate of kidney function 
for a given obese adult patient case 

2. Interpret the effects of body size on antimicrobial exposure based on a review of 
the extant population pharruacokinetic model(s) 

3. Recommend the potential antimicrobial dose modification that may be necessary 
in an obese adult patient case 

Topic 2: Drug Dosing in the Critically Ill 

Speaker: Keith A. , Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. List those physiological changes in critically ill patients which could affect drug 
disposition 

2. Describe and compare pharmacokinetic alterations that am known to occur with 
critical illness and provide examples of antimicrob lal agents affected 

3. Describe at least two antimicrobial agents with well-known pharmacokinetic 
alterations i the face of critical illness and pm pose appropriate dosing 
alterations. 

5:00 pm — 6:00 pm What Did you Miss Because There Was No Funding to Attend 
the Infectious Diseases Meetings 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-O11-L.04-P (1.0 Contact Hour) 

Moderator: Debra A Goff, Pharrn.D, 

Speaker #1: Kerry L. LaPlante, 

Speaker #2: Marc H. Scheetz, Pharm,D,, MSc. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. List and describe some of the major issues and controversial topics regarding 
drug efficacy, toxicity and resistance presen ted at the recent ID meetings 

2 Provide an oveiview of some of the most important therapeutic advancements 
including new compounds under development presented at the recent ID 
meetings 

3. Describe the most recent trends i emerging antimicrobial resistance 

6 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 29/60 

Saturday, May 11. 2013 

7:00 am — 8:00 am Continental Breakfast in Exhibit Hall 

8:00 am — 9:30 am Issues in the Treatment of Respiratory Infections 
ACPE Program 12-LO1-P (1.5 Contact Hours) 

Moderator John A. Bosso, Pharm.D. 

Topic 1: Respiratory Penetration of Antibiotics 

Speaker: Keith A. Rodvold, Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. List and contrast the common methodologies that have been used for measuring 
concentrations of antibiotics in the Jung 

2. Describe and compam the physiochemical and host-related factors that may 
influence penetration of antibiotics at the site of lung infections 

3. Discuss and rank antibiotics that are particularly appropriate for treatment of 
respiratory tract infections 

Topic 2: Inhaled Antibiotics: Facts, Myths and Questions We 
Are Afraid to Ask 

Speaker: Michael N. Dudley! Pharm.D. 

Learning Objectives; 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Identifly the advantages of inhaled antibiotic administration 
2. Describe the importance of formulation and particle size on deposition of 

antibiotics in the lung 
3. Describe the results of recent clinical trials of aerosol antibiotics in cystic fibrosis 

and ventilator-associated pneumonia 

9:30 am — 10:00 am Updates from the MAD-ID Research Network 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-0134 04-P (1.0 Contact Hour) 

Moderator: Debra A. Goff, Pharm.D. 

Speaker #1: Susan L. Davis, Pharm,D. 

Speaker #2: Marc El Scheetz, Pharm.D., MSc. 

7 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 30/60 

L?arning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. State the objectives end goals of the MAD-ID Research Network 
2. Describe the results fmm the MAD-ID Research Network's recent hospital survey 
3. List the various ways in which MAD-ID members and participants can gain 

access and contribute to the MAD-iD Research Network research presentations 
and publications 

10:00am — 11:30am Meet the Professors 
ACPE Program 0485-0000-13-014-LO1-p (1.5 Contact Hours) 

Moderator: Michael J. Rybak, Pharm.D., M.P1-J. 

Panelists: IBA 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. List the acceptable rules for constructing antibiograms, analyze susceptibility 
data and describe pitfalls in use and strategies to avoid them 

2. State methods for optimized pharmacodynamics dosing of antirnicrobials and 
demonstrate proficiency with associated dosage regimen design 

3. Apply accepted methods for formulaty review of new antimicrobial agents 
4. List and describe at least six major papers presented at national! intern etional 

infectious disease meetings in the last 12 months 
5. List similarities and distinguish differences between pediatric and adult 

pharmacodynamics dosing applications 
6. Demons ti-ate the ability to employ a variety of stewardship metrics that could be 

used in documenting stewardship initiatives 
7. State the broad purposes, distinctions arid areas of success of stewardship 

programs as applied in the pediatric population 
6. List basic changes in pharmacokinetics of antimicrobials associated with obesity 

and how they are accommodated in dosing adjustments 
9. List basic changes in pharmacokinetics of antimicrobials associated with critical 

illness and how they are accommodated in dosing adjustments 
I 0. Describe ways in which the pharmaceutical industry may support and participate 

in stewardship efforts 
11. List and analyze ways the current regulatory environment affects development of 

new antimicrobials 
12. Appraise the relative contributions of rapid diagnostics and the microbiology lab, 

in general, to stewardship programs 
13. Apply data reflecting pulmonary penetration of antibiotics and efficacy of inhaled 

antibiotics to therapeutic decision making in regard to pulmonary infections 
14. State the recent advances in knowledge of pathophysiology of Clostridium 

difficile infections as well as prevention and treatment 
15. Describe proper utilization of laboratory tests in management of fungal infections 
16. Identify the proper role of echinocandins in the antifungal armamentarium 

8 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 31/60 

11:30 am — 1:00 pm Managing Fungal Infections 
ACPE Program .01-P (1.5 Contact Hours) 
(AASP) 

Moderator: John A. Basso, Pharm.D. 

Topic 1: An Antifungal Update: Focus on Echinocandins 

Speaker: Kenneth V. Ralston, B. 
Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Describe the contemporary proper place in therapy of the major antifungal 
classes 

2. State and defend those situations in which an echinocandin would be considered 
the antifungal of choice 

3. Compare the relative advantages and disadvantages of the commercially 
available echinocandins 

Topic 2: The Role of Laboratory Testing in Managing 
Fungal Infections 

Speaker: Kevin W. Garey, Pharmt., M.S. 

Learning Objectives: 
Upon completion of this session, the participant will be able to: 

1. Review the evidence on appmpriate timing of ant/fun gals in patients with 
systemic candidiasis 

2, Describe the current protocols and diagnostic tests for the rapid identification of 
patients with systemic candidiasis 

3. Forecast the role for future diagnostic tests in the rapid diagnosis of systemic 
candidiasis 

1:00 pm Meeting Adjourns 

9 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 32/60 

Were the following overall meeting learning objectives met? 

r Totsr 256 

L Total Skippeth a 

No N/A Response 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

256 

Yes 

List the 
acceptabk 
tor cr 
antibioqrams. 
Sate methods 
for irvized na 

nibs dosing of 
Apply accepted 

methods for 
formula ry 

review of new 
List and 

describe at 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 33/60 

properr - n .4% 0.8% 0.8% 
laboratory testS] 252 2 2 255 
ri rnanaøetrteflt 

________________________________________ ____________________ 

Identify the 
proper role at 98.0% 1.2% ,8% 

in the . I 

Iota is; 4,030 50 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 34/60 

the Art of AASP 
Arnr —-- ,flnnn 40 flfl.l 1 fl4 fl : 256j 

L 

Met objectives 

Relevant to 
practice 

/non- 
biased 

w;u benefit my 
practice 

Handouts aided 
learning 

Well-organized 

Effective 
speaker 

344 64 2 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 35/60 

Practical PKIPD AASP 
,.., nAne 19 nnn i n 

L Total Rasponden!s: 

Total Skipped: 

TotalS: 1320 281 40 16 2 

5 

73.8% 
189 

4 

76,6% 
196 

3 

12.9% 

33 

17,6% 

45 

0.4% 

1 

0.8% 
2 

Mn objoctlves 

Relevant to 

practice 

Handouts ided 
learning 

Well-organized 

Effective 
speaker 

2 

2.7% 

7 

0.4% 

I 
0.0% 

0 

00% 
0 % 

199 
.3% 

34 

1.2% 

3 

00% 
0 

04% 
I 

72.3% 
185 

16.0% 

41 

3.5% 

9 0 

70.3% 
180 

8.4% - 
42 

4.3% 

11 

- 1.2% 0.4% 

71.5% 
163 

16.8% 

43 

23% 
6 

2.0% 
5 

0.0% 

0 

' 734% 16.8% 1.2% . 12% 0.0% 
188 43_._ 0 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARYIACV PAGE 36/60 

Keynote; Antimicrobial Stewardship; The COC's Perspective AASP 

L 
Total Respondents: 

Total SkIpped: 

Met 

Relevant lo 

practice 

Objectiv&non- 
iased 

Will ben&ltmy 
practice 

Handouts ahied 
learning zed 
Effective 
speaker 

Totals: .441 2 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 37/60 

's the Poop on Clostridium difficile Infection In 2013? 

I. 

Total 255 

. 0 

Totals: 1,432 245 33 3 2 

S 4 3 2 

81.6% 
209 

14.1% 

38 

0.0% 

a 

0.0% 
a 

Met objectIves 

Relavartto 
practIce 

jectlve)non- 
iased 

Will benett my 
practice 

Handouts iided 

I 

0 

0.0% 

a 

8% 
L.... 210 

.7% 

11.3% 
29 

0% 

2.3% 

6 

0.4% 

0.0% 
0 

OM% 
199 41 1 2 2 

78.5% .3% 
0 

0.0% 

0 

0.0% 
0 0 

0.0% 

0 





12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 39/60 

StewarclsflipMptrics That Justify Your Job AASP l Respondents: - 

total : 
Met objectives 

Relevant b e 
/non- 

biased 

Will benefit my 

Handouts 
learni nq 

Well-organized 

Effective 
speaker 

Totals: ,268 338 9 4 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 40/60 

To be on Pcrrnulary or not to be on Form ulary, 
44,_. ...,.,,., A atan 

Tota! Respondents: 

- 

256 

0 

Totals: 1257 329 59 22 6 

S 4 3 2 

Met objecEives 

Relevant to 
practice 

Will benefft my 
actIce 

Handouts 
learning 

Well-organized 

Effective 
speaker 

I 
71.1% 19.1% 2.3% 0.8% 

182 49 6 2 

0.0% 
0 

70.7% 8,0% ,9% 0.8% 0.0% 
161 46 10 2 0 

75.4% 15.6% 1.6% 0.0% 0.6% 
193 40 4 0 2 

66,2% 20.7% 5.5% 2.0% 0.0% 
167 53 14 5 0 

66.8% 20.3% 3.9% 2.3% 0.0% - 

171 52 10 6 0 

71.1% GS% 
3 2 

70.7% 180% 2.3% 1.6% .8% 
181 46 6 4 2 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 41/60 

Antmlcrobhl Stewardship in Pediatrics AASP 

[ 
1_ ThtalSkipped: 

Met lves 
Relevanito 

practice 

Handouts atded 
learnlrg 

Well-organized 

Effective 
speaker 

4 

Totals: 1,195 323 54 IS I 

5 3 2 1 





12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 43/60 

</PD in Special rations 

r 
I 

Totar Respondents: 

TotSiSkipped: 

256 

0 

Met objectives 

Relevant to ce /non- 
Will my ice 
Handouts Mded 

learning 

Wetl-orqanlzed 

Effective 
speaker 

TothIs; 1,335 314 54 4 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 44/60 

What OW You Miss Because There W2s No Funding to Attend ,, fl , 

LQtaI 
Respondents: 

• Total Skipped: 

Totals: 1,118 354 74 13 9 

C 4 3 2 

Met objectives 

Relevant to 
practice 

Objective/non- 
biased 

Will benefit my 
practice 

Handouts sided 

Pear&ny 

Well-organized 

Effective 

speaker 

1 • 

1 

6t7% 
158 

19954 

51 

4.7% 0.5% - 

12 2 

66.0% 

169 

18.4% 

47 

2.0% 

5 

0.4% 

1 

0.8% 

2 

2% 
149 2 1 

1 

59.6% 
153 

- 

215% 
55 

5.1% 

S - 

5% 
2 

61.3% 

157 

199% - 
51 

5.1% 

13 - 

0.8% 
2 

0,4% 

1 

83.3% — 18.4% 

162 47 

4,3% 

11 

5% 
2 

0.8% 

2 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 45/60 

Issues in Treatment of Respiratory infections 

r— Thtai Respondents: 

Total Skipped: oj 

Met 

Relevant h 
practice 

Will benefit my 
pradilce 

Handouts aided 
learni rig 

WeU-orga n Ized 

Effective 
speaker 

Totals: ,174 295 50 5 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 46/60 

Updates from the MAD-ID Research Network 

isi 

Tot& Skipped: 
2551 

Totals; 1,058 302 71 9 2 

5 4 3 2 

Met objectives 

Relevant to 
practice 

Objectlvelnon- 
biased 

Will benefit my 
practice 

Handouts aided 
lea I rig 

-organized 

ive 
speaker 

i 

62.9% 1 15.6% 20% 
40 5 

0.0% 
0 

• 0.0% 

0 

L 
56.6% 

61.7% 

17.2% 
44 

14,8% 

6.3% 

16 

31% 0.4% 
1 1 

55.9% 18.4% 5.1% 1.2% 
0 

555% 
16 

0.4% 
0 

0.0% 

0 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARYIACV PAGE 47/60 

Meet the Professors 

Total Respondents: 256 

Total Skipped: 0 

ls: 1,007 246 58 2 9 

S 

59.0% 
151 

4 

13.3% 

34 
Met objectives 

Relevant to 
practice lnon- 
biased 

Will benefit my 
practice 

3 

55.9% 
143 

15.2% 

9 

2 

0.0% 
0 

¶ 

00% 
0 

Handouts aided 
learning 

Well-organized 

Effective 
Speaker 

0.0% 

0 

0.0% 

0 

60.2% 
154 1 3 0 

-. 0,4% 

1 

55,9% 13,7% 

- 
.3% 

0 0 

50.0% 11.3% 2% 0.8% 3.1% 
123 29 21 2 8 

- 54.7% 

— 
16.0% &I% 0.0% 

0 0 

4 0 0 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 48/60 

9 lons 

fl 
L TôtsI 

Totals: 1,101 260 34 3 9 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 49/60 

Needs Assessment Result of 2013 Annual MAD ID meeting 

Need for more research-basecj presentations in addition to antimicrobial stewardship 

Notcurrently - firsrt time and very much enjoyed/appreciated all content and speakers! 

This was a very beneficial program but I would recommend a more variety and spread amongst the 
s pea kers 

Classroom sessions were very hands on and helpful. 

It would have been good have wi-fl through MAD-PD in conference rooms since we were expected to 
have our laptops. 

Might consider two tracks at each meeting; one track for new ID practitioners and ASP's, and a second, 
more advanced track for established practioners and programs. 

PLEASE PLEASE PLEASE choose a site with free wifi. After spending >$ 1500 to attend this conference, I 

found it ridiculous I had to spend additional money to pay for use of wifi... Even McDonald's has free 
wifi, Very few people had downloaded info prior to meeting with expectation that we could do so whiFe 
at the meeting. 

Other than Pack of internet - i really enjoyed this conference & found it contained very useful 
information, I especially liked the updates from ICAAC, IDSA ' 
This was my first program and I enjoyed the speakers very much. I was a little surprised at how few 
sponsors there were but I guess that reflects how few companies are manufacturing abx presently. 

"PLEASE move off of Mother's Day weekend. This will likely prevent me from attending in the future due 
to logistical challenges. 

Maybe if someone from the FDA came and described the approval process? 

How AS can become more involved with core measures and other initiatives by JC and CMS to help 
justify the program 

More practical applications and help with difficult patients or talks on how to approach , 
residents, pharmacists with AS strategies and educatiorn 

More time in workshops. They were done so quickly it was hard to grasp the concepts. 

The questions on the tests for the Advanced certification did not always follow the presentation. Some 
of the questions were not answerable from the info given. Pt was difficult to follow the presentation for 
trying to answer the questions 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAcE 50/60 

like to see more interactive presentation but the groups need to be broken into groups of 5 to 10 
Farticipates so cases can be worked through and have more complete professor interaction 

IJespite the long days, I appreciated that the wealth of information was presented in 3 days rather than 
stretched out further. 

rhe session by Dr. Brown was incredibly biased and provided zero benefit to clinicians. 

'This meeting was excellent. lgot alot of great ideas, learned alot, and am excited about doing more 
vvithmyAMsprogram. 

It seemed there were alot of questions / discussion about resistance and susceptibility questions / 
challenges especially with all the flew literature on this topic. I think an excellent session for next year 
would be a mechanisms of resistance and susceptibility type lecture / workshop on identifying and 
managing different phenyotypic resistance patterns. 

I aRC think that the research network could be a great opportunity to study some quesitons like adverse 
drug reactions and certain outcomes? Some things that are harder to evaluate with smaller AMS 
programs, just a thought. Another great research network question might be AMS process related. I say 
that because per the IDSA website they are working on a guideline about conducting stewardship 
programs, and while probably many of the meeting's speakers may be involved, it might be a good way 
to get input about what most people are doing currently. That may not be feasible within the timeframe 
of that guideline development though. 

In order to facilitate more people attending from around the country it might be nice if the location was 
more centralized, but that is my own biased opinion as Someone coming from the west coast.. 

"The CE programs themselves were excellent in content, topics, and the speakers . extremely beneficial 
meeting to have attended. A lot of the programs had great hands on content as well to facilitate 
learning. Q&A periods were also pivotal in the experience. 

Next year consider not printing the CE slides book (only publish PDFs on website); if individuals still want 
it then include a checkbox option during registration." 

"Give the option for soft or hard copies. I prefer the into downloaded on a USS 

Allow more Q&A at the end of every dAy. Meet the professors was very beneficial, F would like more of 
that. 

Start a LIst SErvers to learn what others are doing for ABX stewardship, and answer clinical Abx related 
queations. 

Include a workshop for vancornycin dosing. 

The workshops were great - include more." 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 51/60 

In the workshops have the whole group go through the exercises that way we all work through the 
different examples 

I think the workshops, in particular, were very helpful. Doing is always preferable to listening, and I think 
all workshop speakers provided effective, insightful guidance on important practices within stewardship. 
F ncluding more workshops at future meetings may be of benefit. 

There needs to be at least a S minute break between each session. Sometimes we went 3 hours without 
a break. Not good for our health. Also, satellite symposia are well attended so why not have more of 
those and a longer mid afternoon break? (could learn more if the sessions t all crammed into 
one block. 

le programming was very helpful, appropriate, and presented well. 

I woud consider having the MAD-ID research network, update from other ID meetings, and meet the 
professors session at the very end of the meeting, since those sessions are more optional it may allow 
people to take earlier flights home." 

This years program was a nice balance between lecture material and hands on skills. 

Grouping of the topics; put microbiology as the first recture as the antibiotics and antibiogram build 
from that 

Handouts as a 3 slide per page made some slides unreadable 

liked the audience participation with the voting. I remember one meeting we had pre questions prior to 
the presentation that we voted on as well, This is always a great meeting. Liked the other ID meeting 
updates/pearls. 

All classroom activities need desk with which to work. 

"Great meeting! As a new practitioner/trainee I thought that the interactive workshops were incredibly 
helpful as I will be starting a new stewardship program in the coming months! As far as future meetings 
go, it may be helpful to have some workshops/sessions targeted toward beginners and some targeted 
toward more advanced stewardship applications. 

Enjoyed CDC speaker plus , c.diff and pediatric review. Did not enjoy the meeting rooms 
that did not allow for tables 

The conference was very well planned and as far as 1 can tell went very smoothly. The one comment I 

would make is that it may have been beneficial to have at least a 5-10 n-tinute break between all sessions 
to give people a chance to stretch their legs. 

the pk/pd sessions and the alterations of c in special populations were the most beneficial. The 
keynote speaker was also very good. The pediatric lectures were least relevant to my personal practice. 

I think an every other year HIV talk would be helpful 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 52/60 

'Many of the speakers bad to rush & spoke very quickly. Trim the topics or allow more time 

Loved the hands on approach. Would love to have more hands on experience as I do not have 
experience in ID 

"1. the workshops were particularly interesting and practical. Pharmacists would benefit from this style 
of presentation for basic understanding of stewardship measures. 

2. Expansion on combination therapy strategies far bacterial infections." 

Really appreciated the handouts. If these are to be done away with to save cost, would recommend 
making sure that site has good/free WiFi throughout conference area. 

"1. In some of the evaluations above, there is only one evaluation for both speakers. In one or two 
cases, one speaker was clearly better than the other, but the questionnaire does not allow separate 
ratings. 

2. Keep encouraging everybody, even very small hospitals like mine. I believe in the concept - it's just 
hard to get the resources and support from administration needed to create a quality ASP." 

A metrics handbook for dummies with detailed definitions, suggested spreadsheets, calculations would 
be helpful. 

Overall, excellent conference. Strongly enjoyed the workshop-style morning programs - they were both 
interesting and useful. The Meet the Professors should be the last session of the conference - those truly 
interested will stay until the end regardless. Potential future programs: 1. Stewardship strategies for 
difficult situations (cx; de-escalation for fever of unknown origin, febrile neutropenia, negative cultures, 
etc.) 2. Geographic variability of stewardship practices (maybe have a roundtable session divided by 
region) 3. Medication usage evaluation strategies 4. Management of anti-infective drug shortages 

"Some of the presentations (e.g. drug dosing in obesity) were more theoretical than practical. I would 
like to see more presentations that require audience participation through discussion of institutional 
practices (small groups), patient cases, etc... 

The practical applicability of the topics was extremely beneficial to me because I am able to see how I 

will be able to use them in the future, 

particularly enjoyed the workshops 

Please include information that relates to infections in the immunocompromised host. Also there were 
not any presentations about antivial agents. 

"The hands-on workshops were fun and a great way to enhance learning. 

Provision of useful references by the speakers would be helpful. Contact info (eg. email addresses) for 
the speakers would be a great asset." 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 53/60 

The crowd seemed like they were looking for more straight-forward answers Maybe more case based 
scenarios would be a good addition. 

II really enjoyed the stewardship workshops in the morning and interacting with so many different 
people. This meeting as a whole had such great speakers with excellent presentations that were well 
researched and organized. it Was extremely helpful to me and made me excited and motivated to 
implement some new ideas into my antimicrobial stewardship program (ex. a start on antiretroviral 
stewardship would be exciting to me.. and also very helpful as we are starting to see more and more HIV 
patients at my institiution). 

Include antiretrovira I stewardship 

I am amazed that one can come year after year and new material is presented. I always feel like I am 
learning something new. 

"Second time attending. I really like the melding of the 'bench' academic experts with the everyday 
practitioners like me - pulling the science together with the practice. 

The workshops are helpful - perhaps it would help to allow a little more time for Q & A with these. I 

missed a few concepts while trying to do the 'hands-on' work. 

Providing electronic versions of the lecture handouts were very helpful. 

could there be different topics which take place at the same time? This would allow staff to maximize 
their areas of focus. For example, Pediatrics discussion from 0800-0900 and Geriatrics topic from 0800- 
0900. 1 understand this would require more speakers and meeting facilities 

more about resistance mechanisms for antibiotics 

This was a great meeting. Incorporating both ASP workshops and metrics, as well as, ID review is very 
worthwile. 

'devote a day to abx controversies so that attendees get latest perspective from experts on practical 
issues we are dealing with 

remember that most of your audience does not work in a large teaching hospital, we are in community 
hospitals with limited ' 
Keep the classroom programs, they were helpfuL 

Susan Davis' presentation was disappointing! She did not allot sufficient time to discuss the group 
activities. The information discussed regarding restriction of abx was basic and incomplete. 

"The slides in some of the handouts were so small that they were more confusing than useful. 

The quality of the speakers was phenomenal, especially Keith Rodvold, Kerry LaPlante, and Kevin Garey. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 54/60 

Workshops were helpful. Finding a universal metric to report for stewardship programs would be very 
helpful. 

All workshops need tables. Friday workshop sessions were difficult logisticall to do ) write 
justifications, etc. 

would appreciate a program on implementing stewardship at smaller hospitals where budgets are 
tighter and manpower is less. 

"I found the Stewardship m sessions to be particularly helpful to me. There was discussion and 

hands or learning. 

I also really got a lot of useful information from the Meet the Professors session." 

Antibiogram for outpatient or our community will be useful to the physicians in our clinic. Networking is 

very helpful and the studies obtained from this could impact future therapies as we now know it I hope 

to be a part of this in the near future, 

"1- The bands-on' workshops were great learning sessions. However, sometimes they went rather fast. 

Having practice problems to complete after the workshop is over would be helpful. 

2 - More workshops! 

3 - Updates on guidelines on the most common disease states, including drug selection, duration of 

monitoring, etc." 

"There was much in terms of studies and concepts but need tQ focus on applicability to practice. I think 

the importance is what is done in practice and the ability to learn from the examples from other 

institutions or practice sites. 

Poster session exploded this year. Great job!" 

"Please create list serve for discussions with colleagues in MAD ID. 

Appreciated working groups for Antibiograrri - would like more on that. 

Really liked the workshops but would Pike the answers and discussion to be projected better and more 

explaination during the walk through 

"the PK PD talk was too aclvnaced and too fast for a beginner to follow, group work in many sessions 

was not really 'group work' it was more like lak to person to your left or right if they are interested•- 
perhaps facillators to lead each group and assist would work better. 

maybe you can have session options for advance and basic --depending on where you are with ASP and 
different learning objections; 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 55/60 

Programs Were well organized with a variety of knowledgeable speakers. Will certainly attend again. 

More information on dosing in obesity and abx in patients with COPD 

Try not to schedule a Cdiff talk right after lunch. 

Please look for workshop classrooms that have tables for feasibly of performing assigned tasks 
otherwise a wealth of knowledge provided in an effective environnent lll As always, I look 
forward to attending the program and watching ft expandl 

"The hands-on workshops were specificaUy beneficial. Quantifying utilization metrics was a helpful 
exercise and I would be interested in a similar workshop dedicated at clinicar outcome metrics. 

also enjoyed working through a pharmacoeconomic analysis when considering addition of a new 
antimicrobial to the formulary. 

m always interested in reviewing more of the ID literature regarding orthopedic infections as well as 

indications within :' 
Updates on guidelines and the reasoning behind the changes would be interesting. 

Jack Brown's presentation was one of the worst I have attended. Information for stewardship course 

was somewhat basic for an advanced course. 

The workshops were difficult due to the size of the groups and the orientation of the room. I did not 
find them to be optimal for learning new concepts. It would have been much more beneficial to have all 

the cases/scenarious discussed by the professors. The workshop concept is great but asking people to 
work in groups impromptu, in a short amount of time to cover a relatively large amount of material did 
not work well. The diversity of the groups did not help the situation. You had ID fellows mixed with 
community practitions. 

I would have added more themes about the practical job strategies implementing an Stewardship 
Program, what are the barriers encountered and how did you surpasssed them. In general I was 
expecting more examples of initiatives on how to start, implement a program in detaiL For example cur 
team in Bayarnon Puerto Rico developed a program that includes initiatives for descalation,renal 
adjustments,TDM and we are implementing them with a multidisciplinary round evaluating the patient 
clinic. First of all we defined descalation etc. Thats really what i wanted to hear.And be more specific 
about how to measure the succes of the program based on your initiative. 

#2: Program content. the changes you've made in program content over the past few years is terrific. It 
is a nice mix of advanced information and basic tools we all need to work with daily. The growth of the 
poster program has been good to see with some fine projects being shared. Thanks for all of your hard 
work in bringing this meeting to us each year. It is by far the best and most useful CE!!" 

Keep up the excellent work. This was my first MAD-ID conference and it was fantastic. The amount of 
information dispensed during this conference was incredible and applicable to my daily practice. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 56/60 

loved having the meetings in the same room; I also loved not having to choose between presentations 
(and having the opportunity to attend all talks). loved having such a large number of 
engaging/mentally stimulating workshops and also having the opportunity to hear lectures from such 
KOLs in the field. 1 liked the booklet of slides to work through. Lastly, I found the review questions for 
the presentation to be a helpful reinforcement of what Just learned. At the end of the meeting there 
was an interactive clicker polling session and there was one question about posting the posters online. 
When I answered the question, I thought this option was in addition to the current poster session. I 

wonder if any other members thought this option was to post posters online (AND have session) vs. 

eliminate session and only post online..., as a large majority of members selected this .. 
Give practice strategies about antimicrobial stewardship or let people share their experience. 

Please open the MADID research network to questions 

I thought the program WaS ll I gathered a wealth of knowledge to share with our antimicrobial 
stewardship team. I look forward to attending again next year. 

some discussion on duration of therapy and descalation initiatives. I feel many patients are started on 

empiric treatment, covering for potential healthcare associated infections ,when there symptoms dont 
justify the combinations. I think many get started on triple therapy when there really is not a need ..it 
then takes 3-4days to begin the deescalation period. This dangerous in the resistance era we are in. 

The workshops were very practical and helpful. 

Please make sure that there are tables in all the conference rooms. One of the mornings we didn't have 
tables and I found It very difficult to juggle all my notes and the book we were given. Encourage 
speakers to put all slides in handouts and actually go in order. There were a couple of sessions where I 

felt lost for most of the time because they would jump around or not have the slides in the handouts. 

Review of 1DM guidelines from previous year. 

Enjoyed the hands-on PK problems. More casesl 

The workshops should have just used scree shots. The rooms were long and narrow and you could not 
see the computer screen so it was impossible to follow along plus time consuming for the speaker to 
enter the data in the computer 

The workshop on metrics to follow for the impact of antimicrobial stewardship was especially useful. I 

am trying to get administration to look at parameter other than purchasing data from the pharmacy 
dept. 

some more basic concepts for the beginners (maybe have beginner and advanced sessions so that 
everyone can be accommodated) 

I was a little disappointed in the presentations at this year's meeting. I would read the titles of the 
lectures and expect to get an overview on how effectively treat a specific infection in practice. Instead, 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 57/60 

many presentations highlighted topics for which the speaker could not provide a clear-cut answer and 
sometimes there were no good hints as to the general direction they would take when treating these 
infections. I got the feeling from many of the audience questions that I was not the only one who 
wanted more specific guidance. I think more cases with tricky scenarios and the treatment chosen 
would have been beneficial, felt far too much time was spent on laboratory test methods. I think that 
many pharmacists who are not yet ID experts (but trying to get there) would benefit from some more 
basic talks on antibiotics as used to treat infectious diseases. I think it would be VERY beneficial to add 
extra time to the conference every couple of years and do a crash course in antibiotic selection and the 
basics for starting up an O program from scratch for the beginner ID , I know that you offer 
an online stewardship class, but I feel that even this lacks some of the benefit pharmacists could gain 
from attending classes in this area. 

A few more lectures focused on treatment or prevention of infectious diseases, please. 

presentations centered around practical application of stewardship or key studies! data to support 
recommendations. 

allow for a couple of platform presentations by the abstract presenters; some of that data is really 
interesting. Allow for sonie dedicated time for networking, perhaps centered around the research 
network. 

Liked the mix of work shops and lectures 

"I think it might be interesting to have more pediatrIcs sessions. Also, I really liked the workshops. It 
might be nice to have some of the basic poerful tools of microsoft Excel taught (ie pivot tables, filter, if 
formulas, eliminate duplicates etc); this could be done as a workshop calculating DOTs and LOTs from 
raw MAR data in a matter of 45 minutes, 

I think it's also very helpful to have more sessions on MOWs, as we're all beginning to see them as 

commonplace." 

Would have liked more meetings on Stewardship itself and the process of making it successful. 

I am hoping that in the future with the increasing data collected by the research network, small 
community hospitals, such at the one where I practice, will have a place to 'go' for answers regarding 
dosing and use of ABX. 

I really appreciated the PK/PD portion of the meeting and the new uses for old drugs discussion. 

I liked how some of the sessions were more liked workshops. 

was excellent. My second year in a row and thought it was a little better than last year. 
Would love to see more vendors there. Think I might have liked the Caribe Royale a bit better last year, 
but Marriott was fine too. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 58/60 

Many of the speakers were rushing to get through their info, in the allotted time. The handouts 
particularly toward the latter part of the conference did not follow with the speakers. 

Irneed a kineticsioj, or refresher for some of us 

microbiology refresher would be good. 

Continue to recruit wonderful speakers such as the C-diff speaker from TX. He was wonderful. Also 
maybe have a session focussing a little more on the smaller rural hospitals as our bugs don't always 
match the big institutions' bugs. 

"Suggestions for future programs would be the following: 

1. Include more specific examples of different stewardship programs and how they were implemented. 

2. Include real-life examples of types of antibiotic reports that are used to identify patients in hospitals 
that do not have surveillance software. 

3. How to de-escalate therapy in patients with negative cultures (i.e. pneumonia, SSTIs)" 

"Really enjoyed practical workshops 

The accesibility of leaders in the field was remarkable 

For the workshops, I liked having worksheets that could be filled out. 

A case conference style workshop with audience feedback and live debate over the issues in the case. 

Focus on the new health care environment 

-Liked the idea of the practical sessions. Maybe new ones like 'designing an antibiotic < protocol', etc 

Only use workshop rooms with tables for feasibility of preforming assigned task ... otherwise a wealth 
of knowledge provided in an effective environment l As always, I look forward to attending the 
program and watching it expand year after year. 

Consider covering more basic topics in antibiotic stewardship, particularly in selection of antibiotics for 
pneumonia and ills. A lot of the conference was focused on the big, bad bugs. However, a big part of 
ABX stewardship is every day handing of negative cultures, asymptornatic hacteriuria etc. 

I would like to see less On how to develop a stewardship program and more on the treatment/ideas 
surrounding the development of resistant organisms. I felt that quite bit of the information was more 
theoretical, like I was in college again. I would like to see more sharing of ideas/proposal of how 
different institutions are battling certain issues and the latest treatment guidelines available. More 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 59/60 

user-friendly handouts that may be brought back to our institutions for use, Le. treatment guideline 
table for c. diff treatment. 

Would love to have more courses similar to the fungal course that were clinical review based. 

Have more classroom sessions 

Do an activity in which people can share their antimicrobial stewardship programs and experiences. 

As an HIV specialist, would like to see more HIV inccrpo rated, albeit a very different world of ID. 

Workshops were very beneficial however would have liked more time for discussion with presenter - a 

bit difficult to work out a plan to present with such large groups but thought they were helpful 
nonetheless 

The arti-fungal presentation as well as the Clostridium difficile infection one was fantastic, More 
presentations that are similar in format to those would be beneficial to all clinical practicing clinical 
pha rmacists 

I would like to thank you for the opportunity to present my research poster at the conference, as well as 
the generous travel awards. I hope I was able to share new ideas with other health care providers in 
order to improve patient care. 

More practical examples regarding setting up antimicrobial stewardship programs in various size 
institutions 

I have attended four prior MAD•ID annual meetings, and I thought this was one of the best yet. I 

particularly appreciated more advanced stewdrdship sessions and the basic science posters. Kudos to 
the meeting planners and the faculty. I will definitely be back again next year. 

The </PD programs were exciting and outstanding, and kept the program fresh. Nonetheless, the 
majority of the conference remains at a 'beginner's' level. I would love an advanced track, or for this 
conference to merge with the SIDP conference to allow for more flexibility in programming. 

"Would like to have tables in classrooms for all 'working' sessions like the one on calculating TDDs, etc. 
We had to hold our books in our laps." 

Tips and tools for the everyday practitioner would be helpful. 

Would like to learn more from experts in optimizing antimicrobial therapy for treatment of infections 
caused by multid rug resistant organisms 

Susan Oavis' Formulary lecture was by far the worse lecture. She really did not demonstrate an 
unbiased lecture. She constantly commented on 'Henry Ford' practice as welJ as 'her residents and 
feJlow'. It's demeaning to refer to people as possessions as if she 'owned' these post-grads. 



12/23/2013 17:08 8504136982 BOARD OF PHARMACY PAGE 60/60 

Additionally she did not complete the discussion points with the hands on activity. Formulary 
management is definitely a topic that we can all relate to warranting a thorough discussion. 
Unfortunately in my this lecture did not meet its : 
more workshops for new practionears 

I would love to see more practical workshops available! 

Consider stewardship talks from the point of the more disadvantaged hospitals arc 
willing to supply the best technologies however still expect to show significant results with the supplies 
at hand. 

Voting or sharing one's opinion via texting is unfortunately not possible to everyone. Perhaps ask for 
show of hands for these people 

Some lectures on advanced and innovative ASP practices and ideas would be beneficial to those who 
already have a good grasp on the fundamentals 

It seems like same 3 people run the conference & all the speakers are close friends/colleagues. Maybe it 
is just a small community 

Would like to see other infectious disease inclusion, such as vaccines and immunizations 



BOARD OF PHARMACY Rules Report January2014 

Rule Number Rule Title 
Rule 

Development 
Published 

Notice Published Adopted Effective Comments 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-26.206 

Application for Pharmacist 
Licensure by Endorsement 
(Foreign Pharmacy Graduates) 

10/1/2012 
5/24/2013 

Tolled 7/31/13 
To be withdrawn 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-27.700 
Definition of Compounding 12/20/2013 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-27.797 

Standards of Practice for 
Compounding Sterile 
Preparations 

12/20/2013 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-28.140 

Recod Maintenance Systems 
for Community, Special-Limited 
Community, Special Closed 
Systems, Special-Parenteral, 
and Nuclear Permits 

1/6/2014 

Fla. Admin. CodeR. 
64B16-28.301 

Destruction of Controlled 
Substances - Institutional 
Pharmacies 

10/21/2013 11/7/2013 
JAPC Ltr 11/15/13, 
response 12/09/13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-28.450 
Centralized Presciption Filling, 
Delivering and Returning 

9/6/2013 
9/24/2013 NOC 

12/12/13 

JAPC Ltr. Rec'd 
10/04/1 3, Resp. 

12/9/13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-28.608 
Automated Filling Systems 
within a Pharmacy 

1/6/2014 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-28.81 0 

Special Pharmacy- Limited 
Community Permit 

10/18/2013 11/6/2013 
JAPC Ltr 11/14/13, 
Response 11/20/13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-28.840 
Special Non-Resident (mail- 
service) 

1/3/2013 
Development 

expired 
Pending SERC reqired 
forms and language. 



BOARD OF PHARMACY Rules Report January2014 

Rule Number Rule Title 
Rule 

Development 
Published 

Notice Published Adopted Effective Comments 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B1 6-28.901 
Nuclear Pharmacy-General 
Requirements 

9/6/2013 9/24/2013 12/11/2013 12/31/2013 
JAPC Ltr Recd 
10/04/13 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 

64B16-30.001 

Disciplinary Guidelines, Range 
of Penalties, Aggravating and 
Mitigating Circumstances 

9/6/2013 
9/24/2013 

NOC 12/11/13 

JAPC Ltr Rec'd 
10/04/13, 10/31/13, 
12/02/13 Response 
11/12/13, 11/13/13, 
12/09/13 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of all in florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

January 24, 2014 

BTV Pharmacy 
4310 NW th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33127 

RE: Request for Declaratory Statement 

Dear BTV Pharmacy: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, February 11, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Convention Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. The meeting will begin at 1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh. state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444 ext: 3367. 

Sincerely, 

'(ay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

PLEASE DISREGARD THE PREVIOUS LETTER YOU RECEIVED THAT STATED THE MEETING 
STARTED AT 9:00A.M. 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentof Health 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE fldoh 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALThf 

DEPUTY CLERK 
BTV Pharmacy CLERK 
4310 NW th Avenue 6 21114 
Miami, FL 33127 
Pharmacy License No: 26147 
Phone: 305.751.7882 
Fax: 305.7517884 

Department of Health Agency Clerks Office 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Bin #A02 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1703 
RE: Petition for Declaratory Statement from Florida State Board of Pharmacy 

December 20, 2013 

Dear Sir(s): 

BTV Pharmacy is requesting a declaratory statement from the Florida State Board of Pharmacy pursuant 
to section 120.56 of Florida Statutes regarding a recent decision from a Pharmacy Benefit Manager 
(PBM) to recover monies for claims they are citing were incorrectly dispensed. OptumRx, the auditing 
PBM, cited that the pharmacy incorrectly dispensed medications for patients that were transferred to 
the pharmacy due to the actual "original amount dispensed" not specifically stated on the prescription. 
It was our pharmacy's contention that the amount was implied from the number of refills remaining and 
the last amount dispensed, which is included on the transfer order. The organization is standing by their 
decision because they are literally interpreting Florida Statute 465.026 (1) (d). It is the pharmacy's 
position that the inference can be made about the original amount dispensed. In fact, the pharmacy 
further feels the PBM is "interfering with their professional judgment according to Florida Statute 
465.026 (1) (e). 

We, therefore, ask for the Florida State Board of Pharmacy to make a declaratory statement on behalf of 
the interpretation or intent of the statute. Our pharmacy is facings $22,890.20 recovery from a single 
audit, representing only 13 claims from this organization. The impact could be much more significant, 
should this PBM or others choose to recover monies on any and all transfer prescriptions this pharmacy 
has received. 

The goal of our pharmacy is to dispense all medications safely and accurat&y according to state and 
federal law; however, we feel the lack of flexibitity in these circumstances presents an unjust recovery 
for medications that OptumRx patients needed, have received, and were dispensed in good faith. 

We eagerly await your statement in this matter. Should you need any additional information or 
assistance, we may be contacted using the above information. We appreciate the Florida State Board of 
Pharmacy's assistance with this matter. 

Basel Asali, RP+i 

Owner, BTV Pharmacy 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

OhAve. 
D 

Miami, 1133127 

Pharmacy license no: 26147 

Phone: 305-751-7882 

Fax: 305-751-7884 

Department of Health's Agency Clerk's Office 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #A02 

Tallahassee, FL 32399•1703 

RE: Petition for Declaratory Statement before the State Board of Pharmacy 

December 11, 2013 

To whom it may concern, 

This letter is being written for a "Petition for Declaratory Statement before the State Board of 

Pharmacy". My name is Basel Asali and I am the owner of BTV Pharmacy (NCPDP# 5710377) 

a statement regarding florida Statute 465.026 (d). 

My pharmacy recently underwent an audit from OptumRx and was cited a recovery of 

$22,890.20 referencing this statute for invalid prescription transfer orders on 13 claims. Specifically 

they are stuting the transfer does not contain the "original amount dispensed" even though this can be 

inferred or calculated with the information provided on the transfer orders. I am including these orders 

with the PHI removed for your review and consideration when making the determination. If this 

determination is upheld this recovery will substantially affect my pharmacy's ability to do business due 

to the large amount of money involved on these targeted extremely high dollar claims. Also, I would like 

to point out that if this can be done without a declaratory statement we are fine with a document from 

the state board acknowledging they reviewed the prescriptions and determined they are valid under 

Florida State Law they are usir.g that statute as cause for recovering the money. 

It is our pharmacy s goal to dispense all medication accurately and according to state/federal 

law, however we feel the lack of flexibility in this case by OptumRx is recovering an unjust amount for 

claims dispensed in good faith. I appreciate the Board of Pharmacy's assistance in this matter and look 

forward to working with you as needed. I can be reached at the pharmacy using the contact information 

listed above. 

Respectfully, 

Basel Asali 

Owner, BTV Pharmacy 



05) 
07J12/Z013 1102:05 AM 

Page: 1€ 

VH Pharmacy 
1000 SW 1* 

Miami, FL 33 130 

(305) 324-8777 FaE(305) 324-5604 

DEA: AV6332441 

PRESCRIPTiON TRANSFER DETAIL 

RX NUMBER 6398049 

DATE 
FIRST PILL DATE: 06/19/2013 

LAST PILL. DATE: 0919/2013 

DRUG NDC -0009-13 
DRUG NAME: ABUJFY 15MG 

WRITflLN QTY: 60 

ORIG REFILLS AIJrH: 5 

LAST DISP QTY: 

Q1Y RIIMAIMNO: 
PILLS RZMAINING: 
REFILL EXP DATE: 

NOTE: 

ThIS REPORT CONTAINS 
WHICH IS LEGALLY PROTECTED UNDER IPAA. LEGiSLATION. 

I U THIS COMMUNICATiON IN ERROR, DO NOT DISTRIBUTE THE ION ANY FURTHER. 

-— - .'.m A I Llfltt 

): 
ARMACY: BTV PHARMACY 

sDRI3SS: 4310 NW 7 AVE 

IYSTZIP: 127 
ONE: (305) 751-7*82 

(305)751-7884 

PHARMACIST: BEATRICE 
FF3605409 

ATIENT INFORMATiON: 
NAME: 

ODRflSS: 1 

ITY,STZIP: 
- - 

ATE OF BIRTH: 

INFORMATION: 

PHARMACY: VII PHARMACY 

ADDRESS: 1001) SW 1ST 

CITY, ST ZIP: MIAMI, FL 33130 

PHONE: (305) 324-8777 

FROM PHARMACIST: EDDY 

DEA A 

TRANSFER DATE: 0711212013 

RX INFORMATION: 

OCTORNAMfr 
I3SS 
:rry, ST ZIP: 

OCrOR DEA: 
NP1 

MENDOZA, 1LIANA 
tOO STHST 
MIAMI, FL 33137 

599 
8M9204443 
1750585139 

60 
300.000 
s-coo 
061092014 
ILIWIcJLDML.1. 1 



1 TABLET TWICE DMLI JDJ: 

TOTAL: 1312.63 
ORIG: 5 

100 88 38 57 305—576—1593 

81381. 11 33137 
ORG 07— 06/07/13 



Description. 
Prior Authorization Required 
Prior Authorization Required - 

Provide Beneficiary with CMS Notice of Appeal Rights 

Enter? for e p 
Group* PDPIND Birth 

U 

cD 
75 
75 
569 

Auth* 131822251933094999 

Who RxNumb . . Date.. Code Customer 
Status 

AA 06009288 07/01/13 

Rejected (D) 

0 
C 

McK-2 

4310 7Th 



e * t,t* 

L
I/

al
/g

o 
—

L
U

 , 
14

 
• 
iw

nx
 

L
U

 
II

 S
R

 
L

tL
T

 
st

at
 z

za
 

ao
oa

 a
n*

 n
in

y 
oo

 
ay

40
3 

SH
ilO

R
 

A
V

G
 
V

 
S

ar
nz

 
E

 
(O

W
O

G
S)

 
S

W
IQ

S
JV

D
 

P
 

ir 
IL

gS
 

Z
3f

lM
 

flh
in

n 
go

 
Z

o—
pI

to
—

c*
nt

.n
 

13
$Z

I 
iv

n 
ar

e 



VH Pharmacy 
t000SW 1st 

Miani,FL33130 

(305) 324-8771 Fai:(305) 324-5604 

DEA: AV6332441 

PRESCRIPTLONTRMSFKR DETAIL 

04g0Y2013 

TO: 
pHARMACY: 
ADDRJ3SS: 

CITY, ST ZIP: 
PHONE: 
FAX: 
TO PHARMACIST: 

DEA 

BTV PHARMACY 1 
MIAMI, FL 33127 

(305) 7517882 
(305) 751-7884 

SIUREEN 
Fp3605409 

PATiENT : 
PATIENT NAME: 1L*L 

ADDRESS:. .. . IL 1T 

CiTY ST ZIP: U - 

I 

DATE OF BIRTH: .ilL 

EX INFORMATION: 
RXNUMESR 6373411 

DATE WRiTTEN: 01/0312013 

FIRST FILL. DATE: 01/03/2013 

LAST FiLL DATE: 03/20(2013 

DRUG NDC 61958-0701-01 

DRUG NAME: TRUVADA 

WRITFEN Q1Y: 30 

ORIG REFILLS AUTH: 6 

LAST 01SF QTY: 30 

Q1Y REMAINING: 90.000 

FILLS REMAINING: 3.000 

REFILL LX? DATE: 01/02(2014 
TAKE (I) TABLET DAILY.- 

NOTES: 

THiS REPORT CONTAiNS PMII3NT INFORMATION WHICH 1$ U1GALLY PROTECTED UNDER HIPAA LEGISLATION. 

jF HAVE RECEIVI3I) TillS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, DO NOT DISTRIBUTE WE INFORMAI1ON ANY . 
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY US AND DESTROY THE ORIGINAL MESSAGE. 

— 
I, ———- —r taOfl 

FROM: 
PHARMACY: VH PHARMACY 

ADDRESS: 1000 SW 1ST 

CiTY. ST ZIP: MIAMI, FL. 33130 

PHONE: (305) 324-8777 

PROM PHARMACIST: EDDY 

DEA AV6332441 

TRANSFER DATE: 04/05/2013 

DOCIOR : 
DocroR NAME: 

ADDRESS 
CITY, ST ZIP: 
PHONE: 
DOCtOR DEA: 
DOCtOR NFL: 

BOLIVAR.. HECTOR 

1611 NW 12 AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33136 
(305)585.1111 
1234567 
1558398206 



305—634—7635 200 MG-300 NO 25B 
30 flU 

619580?0101 
02 WU.tS 2RICZ 1254.65 

ThU 1. 

AD.3 
1254.6$ 

copir. 
TOTAL: 

1254.65 

CR10: S A 
NO 

12 AVS 

FL 33136 



- 
REFILL\ \- LTJMES 

suesTmmoN PERMflTED 

_____________ADDRESS 

WA 

- - 

LM. 
P.M. 

- 

-- I 
----. 

Address I - 

un_i 

- 

LL 

_________________ 

McK-2 

Mfl 

- 
MARTHA 



/1.3 
80*XRA 40 B I a PU 3BBVI 
00074—4339—02 *zvIT.r.c P3.Xcz 2248.38 
IN.JECT 4OMr 2241.78 
SUBCOThNEOUSU COPAX: 3.50 
OTHER kS DIRECTED ?O?31. 2245.28 

ORIG: 5 

4300 AI.T0B RD 305—674—2121 
MIAMI BRACE, PL 33140 RAMP 



Phonc - - 

- 
Phone 

240 
Ou 01/17/13 

gemaiflflg 4 

$ .48*IIaet CASH 

$ .48*price CASH 

$ Di5C 
$ 'Tax 
$ Total 
$ 99954 
$ 117.94 Margin 
$ 0.00 Pays 

SIGNED & PICE3D UP 

Rx Memo OUT Wed Feb 6, 

StatUs praneierred De3.i.17e3?Y Px Pickup 

LabelS 1 Label 4457C Prt I 

lielp 10 Edit 

Tech ) Prescriptboxl Edit/Label Wed Feb 20131 

Jr Px * 63045 00 Rf * 2 

DoctOr ALEXIS 
- DEA 08 

Drug 600 WO 

BRAND PS 3 
1 TABLET TWICE DAY 

s Supply 30 
10 R Left in This Pill 

Qty 60 GO 

OnhaM -2g20 60 

Unit nose? N t&eiil].S 6 

Pay 
1117.48? 

plan(s) 
BOS 
PZWARDS 

Orig RX 
Px Date 
Written 
Expires 

01/17/13 
11/27/12 
11/27/13 

1 WRITTEN DAW 0 

F1AddRX F2Clear 



L
12

0.
L

4 
1.

 
T

A
B

L
E

T
 

T
W

IC
E

 D
A

IL
Y

 
A

V
J:

 
11

20
.1

4 
C

O
PA

Y
* 

.0
0 

11
Z

: 
11

*0
.1

.4
 

M
E

X
 

A
P2

44
86

20
 

16
1.

1.
 

N
W

 
1.

2 
A

V
E

 
30

5—
24

3-
16

1.
5 

N
IM

U
 •

 
F

L 
R

A
P 

O
R

G
 

D
V

- 
11

/2
7/

12
 



Patient - :, 
• PLD384=0O 

POWELL, ALEXIS 

Drug INTELENCE 100 MG ThBLET 
NDC 59676-0570-01 ERAND 120.00 
P 

TAKE 2. TABLET TWICE A DAY Pay $ 
445.05p $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
S 
$ 
$ 

Rx Memo TRANSFERRED 
Status 
Labels o Label 4457c 

Rx U 63044 
-f * 2 

DNA -5225708 
QtyLett 240 

60 On 01/17/13 
Remaining 4 

445 .05*Last CASH 
445 CASH 

Disc 
Tax 
Tot&l 
Cost(397.s7} 
Margin 
Patient_Pays 

SIGNED & PICKED UP 
OUT Wed Feb 6, 203..> 
Delivery Rx Pickup 

PTh 1 

S 

I I 

PA Tech MMD Preicription Edit/Label Login: PA 
1 

Phone I UJI @ Phone i ..I -ì 
Qty 60 Dispensed 60 
Onhand -3780 LetQty 
Unit Dose? N Refills 6 
Plan(s) 
508 
REWARDS 

Orig Rx 
Rx Date 
Written 
Expires 

- Supply 30 
Day's Left in This Pill 

ORIG 1 WRITTEN DAW 0 

FlAddRx P2 l7ndo 

11/27/12 
01/17/13 ill 27/12 
11/27/13 

445.05 
397-57 
47.48 

0.00 

F4 Done Help 10 Edit 

CL S r' Jr 
EL- 



Il- 

Dr. 

I 
S 

DATE_____ 

/ Ut 

REELL 

DEA NO 

19115 .1) . SAMUELS PtS)OUCTL tnt.. 1SOJS.543.7165. FAX. 



—— RZTAT&Z 300 as 7 60 CZ.P 

00003-362212 *01 qlULS 2094-11 

TAKE 1 CAPSULE TWICE 
DAILY TOTAL: 2094.71 

723. 51 17TH ST3ZLT CSW! 305-940-0522/ 

FOBT LAUDZBDALL. FL SRP 



14
 

IB
I 

X
V

d 

__
__

__
__

_ 

H
O

 



CE 4464 59762—45370]- 01 

INJECT 
.00 

1.D3: 44.64 

44.64 

L6601 II L9TH 305-944—2902 
2L 33162 



50
 

fiO
cd

es
c 

07
12

41
20

13
 jO

C
 

. 
03

0C
R

IT
 

00
40

15
0/

M
I. 

o!
/1

w
9I

3,
00

 
10

 1
*8

15
M

G
 

10
71

08
/2

01
3 

00
 

S
O

N
 

01
11

 

05
/0

2/
20

13
 

IC
00

8U
S

 
C

A
P

 3
20

M
G

 

06
/1

4/
30

13
 .

00
 

'T
R

IZ
lV

IR
 

1*
6 

11
0/

20
13

 0
0 

!0
0N

T
hE

15
 

T
A

O
 4

00
06

0 

06
/ 1

/2
0j

3 
00

 
0A

D
A

 
O

 30
0-

30
0 

05
/1

4/
20

13
 

00
 

50
3h

61
1.

D
 

1*
8 

• 
04

/2
9/

20
13

 
00

 
16

60
00

M
G

 

03
00

 
P

R
E

2I
S

T
A

 
5*

86
00

M
G

 
,0

4/
2#

20
U

 0
0 

C
O

M
P

L0
S

A
 

16
$ 

04
/1

6/
20

03
 

00
 

A
IR

IP
LA

 
T

A
O

 

04
/1

2/
20

13
10

0 

00
07

11
21

/3
/2

51
3 

05
/0

6/
20

10
 

01
 

T
5U

V
A

D
A

 
1*

62
00

-3
00

 

60
07

71
2 
19

/2
01

0 
02

 
'1

S
U

V
A

02
A

 
5*

82
00

-3
00

 
60

07
70

0 
1/

23
/2

01
0 

04
/0

2/
30

10
 

°P
. 

*6
61

10
3 

T
A

O
 3

0M
G

 

60
07

50
6 

0/
27

/3
01

0 
04

/0
5/

20
10

 
00

 
06

N
S

IP
A

R
 

T
A

B
 9

0M
G

 

66
06

02
6 

/2
01

3 
60

/0
7/

20
13

00
 

T
A

B
 6

00
M

G
 

11
/5

/2
03

2 
IIU

M
IR

A
P

0N
 

61
54

00
60

/6
20

 

04
/1

5/
W

10
• 

H
LI

M
IR

A
 

10
/0

.5
 

02
/2

1/
20

13
00

 
O

N
 

02
/1

5/
20

33
 

00
 

I6
U

V
A

D
A

 
16

82
00

-3
00

 
02

/1
0/

20
13

 
00

 
16

19
0M

G
 

Fu
fi

 re
co

up
m

en
t. 

In
va

lid
 p

re
sc

np
llo

n.
 tr

an
sf

er
 

pr
es

cr
ip

6o
n 

re
co

rd
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

or
lg

fle
l 

am
ou

nt
 d

is
pe

ns
ed

 a
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

pe
r 

F
to

rld
s 

S
ta

tu
te

 

(4
 S

ee
 l

as
t 

pa
ge

 fl
or

iS
t 

st
ab

ile
, 

- 

00
.0

0.
 P

S
I 

re
co

op
m

en
l. 

In
va

lid
 p

re
sc

rip
tio

n.
 T

ra
ns

fe
r 

!p
re

sc
ttl

on
 re

co
rd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
co

nt
si

o 
lir

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

;e
nt

eu
nl

 d
is

pe
ns

ed
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

r 
F

lo
rid

a 
S

ta
tu

te
 

$s
,e

ie
.s

ei
4O

tO
2S

 (d
).

 
S

ee
 le

st
 p

ag
e 

fo
r h

iS
 s

ta
tu

te
. 

$0
00

1 
- 

*e
oi

 
bo

o!
 ! sa $0

26
. 

F
ul

l r
ec

or
çr

ne
nf

. 
ro

aM
 p

re
sc

rip
tio

n.
 t

re
ns

fe
r 

pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

re
co

rd
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 
as

ne
se

ti 
di

sp
en

se
d 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pe
r 

F
lo

rid
a 

S
ta

tu
te

 
(d

).
S

ee
 le

st
 p

eg
s 

ta
r 

fu
ll 

st
at

ut
e.

 

P
ea

l r
ec

oi
çn

re
nt

 I
nv

al
id

 p
re

sc
rip

tio
n,

 tr
an

sf
er

 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
re

co
rd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
co

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
oe

lg
ls

at
 

am
ou

nt
 d

sp
sn

so
d 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pe
r F

lo
rid

a 
S

ta
tu

te
 

53
,2

04
.5

54
05

 0
20

(d
).

 S
ee

 1
S

t 
pe

gs
 fo

r f
oi

l 
ot

et
et

e.
 

F
ra

lrs
co

up
eo

en
t. 

In
ve

ld
 p

re
sc

rip
tio

n.
 T

re
ns

fe
' 

'p
re

sc
rip

tio
n 

re
co

rd
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

or
ig

he
l 

se
ns

is
il 

di
sp

en
se

d 
so

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pe

r 
F

lo
rid

a 
S

ta
tu

te
 

$1
,2

54
.6

5 
40

t0
20

 (
d)

. S
ee

 l
es

t 
pa

ge
 fo

r 
tr

ill
 s

ta
tu

te
. 

st
oo

l 
st

oo
l F

rd
lre

co
er

pm
en

t. 
In

ve
tid

 p
re

sc
rip

tio
n.

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
re

co
rd

 d
oe

s 
tr

ot
 c

or
rie

le
 t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 

lg
in

el
 d

is
pe

ns
in

g,
 o

rig
in

al
 e

ss
ou

nt
 d

is
pe

ns
ed

, 
or

 
S

te
 p

ee
sc

np
llo

n 
nu

m
be

r a
s 

re
qr

ie
d 

pe
r 

F
lo

rid
a 

O
te

tu
fle

 4
65

, 

F
S

Is
nc

ou
pm

en
t t

nv
el

ld
 p

re
sc

rip
tio

n.
 T

ra
ns

fe
r 

pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

re
co

rd
 d

oe
s 

no
t c

on
ie

s 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f 
or

Ig
in

al
 d

is
pe

ns
in

g,
 o

rig
in

el
 a

m
ou

nt
 d

is
pe

ns
ed

, o
r 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

nu
m

be
r a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

r 
F

lo
rid

a 
$2

,2
e5

.2
5 

!ta
tr

S
 

S
ee

 
se

t 
pa

ge
 fo

r h
ilt

 s
ol

ut
e.

 
$0

00
 

00
00

. 
se

a iF
ia

lR
ec

ou
po

re
nl

. 
ln

ve
6d

 p
re

oc
rip

tio
n.

 T
rs

ne
le

r 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
re

co
rd

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
on

ta
in

 th
e 

ne
nr

e 
of

 th
e 

ip
lle

em
le

cy
 e

t 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

pr
es

cs
lp

llo
n w

as
 o

n 
Ill

s 
es

 

re
qe

te
d 

pe
r F

lo
rid

e 
S

ta
tu

te
 4

65
.0

20
(4

 S
ee

 l
en

t 
pa

p 
fo

r 
fu

l s
ta

tu
te

. 
A

dd
ol

on
ei

ly
, 

ph
er

s'
ac

y 
's

sb
m

flt
ed

 w
ro

ng
 p

re
sc

rib
er

, P
re

sc
rip

tio
n 

w
rit

te
n 

by
 

S
t.1

20
.le

A
ls

td
s 

P
ow

st
, 

ph
an

rs
ec

y 
su

be
ni

lte
d 

R
id

re
rd

 P
ow

et
t. 

P
S

I 
R

ec
ou

pe
se

nt
. t

nv
et

d 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n.
 T

re
ns

te
r 

ec
rip

rio
n 

re
co

rd
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

co
ot

ab
s 

ow
 n

n 
of

 t
Ir

e 
•p

ha
nn

ec
y 

at
 w

Ith
 th

e 
pr

ea
cr

ip
llo

n 
w

as
 o

n 
fil

e 
as

 

re
qk

ed
 p

er
 F

lo
rid

. S
ta

fir
rie

 4
65

.0
20

(4
 S

ee
 te

st
 

pa
ge

 fo
r 
lo

t 
st

at
ut

e 
iy

. phe
ns

ac
y 

eu
bm

is
ed

 w
ro

ng
 p

re
sc

rib
er

. 
P

re
sc

rip
tls

n 
w

rt
tlo

n 
by

 
15

06
 A

is
ei

s 
*5

. 

P
S

I 
R

ec
ou

pr
ve

ot
 
lrv

at
d 

pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

 T
re

ns
fe

r 
, record does

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
in

 t
he

 rm
rs

re
 
of

 t
Ir

e 
ph

en
na

cy
 a

t 
eO

ns
 th

e 
pr

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
w

ss
 o

n 
O

s 
as

 

re
qs

dr
ed

 p
er

 F
lo

rid
a 

S
ta

tu
te

 4
66

.0
26

(4
 S

ee
 l

as
t 

pa
ge

 ts
r 

fu
ll 

st
ab

ile
. iy

. phs
rm

ec
y 

•s
ra

m
ut

ie
d 

w
ro

ng
 p

es
so

tb
er

. 
P

re
sc

rip
tio

n 
w

rlo
en

by
 

$3
,lo

a.
so

lw
le

sr
is

 P
ow

el
( 

ph
en

se
cy

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 R

ic
ha

rd
 P

ow
el

l. 

50
.0

01
 

F
irs

t 
F

in
di

ng
s 

R
ec

la
im

 

- 
, 

Jn
rs

tn
sr

iin
qs

 
•.

. 
- 

4.
.. 

A
pp

ea
l 

ss
lte

r/
do

cs
en

en
rs

 r
ec

ei
ve

d;
 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
ln

sr
ill

tc
le

nl
 to

 a
m

en
d 

fin
di

ng
s.

 t
he

re
fo

re
, 

fin
di

ng
s 

st
iti

 
$1

,3
72

.6
1.

 s
ta

nd
. 

1 
. —

 lese
r/

do
cu

rr
re

nl
o 

re
ce

iv
ed

: 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

in
su

ffI
ci

en
t t

oe
rv

en
d 

fin
di

ng
s.

 t
he

re
fo

re
, f

in
di

ng
s 

O
s 

3,
67

4.
56

 s
ta

nd
. 

$0
00

 
$0

00
 

$0
.0

0 

$0
.0

0 

50
20

 
$0

00
 

$0
00

 A
pp

ea
l 

Is
se

r/
do

cu
m

en
ls

 re
ce

iv
ed

: 
ho

w
ev

er
, lc

ie
ni

 ho 
em

en
d 

Itn
di

rr
gs

. 
T

he
re

fo
re

, 
fin

di
ng

s 
st

Ill
 

$2
,2

54
.e

s.
st

en
d.

 

A
pp

ea
l l

et
to

rr
do

cu
rn

er
lf s

 r
ec

ei
ve

d;
 

ho
w

ev
er

 i
ns

irf
sc

le
nt

 to
ar

ne
nd

 
$n

di
ng

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
fin

di
ng

s 
s1

15
 

$2
,2

54
.6

0 
I 
st

an
d.

 

A
pp

ea
l I

es
er

fd
sc

ur
oe

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

: 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t I

s 
em

en
d 

fin
di

ng
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, f

in
di

ng
s 

st
ill

 

$1
,2

54
.0

5 
st

an
d.

 
• 

$0
20

2 

$0
.0

0 

$0
.0

0 

A
pp

ea
l I

es
sr

/d
oc

um
sn

ts
 re

ce
iv

ed
; 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
in

si
lfl

ds
nt

 I
D

 e
m

en
d 

fin
di

ng
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, 

fin
di

ng
s 

st
ill

 
$3

,2
41

.7
5 

• 

A
pp

ea
l l

en
er

/d
oc

rr
m

sn
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d;
 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
in

sr
fll

ci
en

l t
o 

em
en

d 
fin

di
ng

s.
 T

he
re

lo
re

, 
fin

di
ng

s 
st

ill
 

$2
,2

45
.2

0 
st

an
d.

 
50

.0
60

 

50
A

0j
 

.. 
A

pp
ea

l l
et

is
r/

do
cu

m
en

ls
 re

ce
iv

ed
: 

ho
w

ev
er

, i
ns

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 e

m
en

d 
fin

di
ng

s.
 T

ho
rs

fo
re

, 
lin

dn
gt

 s
til

l 
st

an
d 

A
pp

ea
l l

eo
te

rr
do

cu
m

en
to

 re
ce

iv
ed

; 
Ir

ow
en

er
, 

ls
st

df
lc

le
nt

to
 a

m
en

d 
fin

di
ng

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
fin

di
ng

s 
sl

ifi
 

- 
$s

ot
u.

M
an

d 

A
pp

ea
l I

el
le

rr
do

cu
m

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d:
 

ho
w

ev
er

, l
os

uf
fic

le
nt

 t
o 
fin

d 
tk

rd
b'

sg
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, O

nd
in

gs
 s

til
l 

$1
,5

15
.5

3 j
ol

an
d.

 

ea
L.

 

lA
sd

itr
ls

dt
ng

o 
's

sl
F

fld
in

os
 

fIr
st

 
69

1 
W

rt
itv

so
st

e 
60

09
73

3 
; 
5 

eO
O

lS
O

4'
5/

7/
20

13
 

60
09

5/
5/

21
3 

P
rd

us
tte

ar
yr

lo
ds

rg
s 

M
ot

es
 

A
pp

r 
lP

sl
es

da
im

 A
m

ou
nt

 
bs

he
ry

F
in

di
ng

s 
10

05
 

, 
$3

,1
70

.3
0 

00
.0

0-
 

G
ry

 

00
 

21
0 

33
6 

00
 

-0
0 

,3
0 

.3
0 54

0 

•0
0 30

 

30
 

30
 

30
 

30
 

,0
0 30

 

,5
00

 

M
O

le
st

 
60

86
0 

te
ns

 
P

el
te

r 

D
A

M
 

M
IC

N
65

L 

11
11

$ 4A
 

61
15

08
 

R
A

Y
M

O
N

D
 

55
14

55
1 

N
IC

O
IA

 s E
cT

oR
 

H
oc

so
e I IU

A
N

 

61
55

50
0 

cA
st

os
 

05
 

25
 

30
 

21
 

25
 

30
 

30
 

30
 

so
 

36
 

30
 

,3
0 30

 

25
 

U
 H
 

$5
,6

74
.0

8 
53

,4
00

.6
2 

$1
,0

01
.1

2 

E
IP

t5
5O

Z
A

 
$3

,2
52

.0
1.

 
l1

6M
M

6R
flt

t 

.0
60

00
 

• 
$3

,4
77

.1
1 

F
A

ltE
R

 
23

 
F

O
X

 
51

.5
15

,0
6 

0R
U

 
$1

,e
25

.s
1 

eo
sj

vA
a 

' 
$1

,2
04

.6
5;

 

*1
.3

4.
80

1 

so
us

e 
• 

• 
sz

ze
oo

 
.V

A
C

A
 

,. 
S

 • 
$1

,3
65

.0
1'

 
eN

C
ttS

zJ
os

ns
 

53
,4

70
4 

I 

S
O

S
IN

 
$3

,2
41

.7
6 

- 
$2

,2
e6

12
e;

 

.s
w

cg
 eo

n 
$3

,2
36

.6
0 

- 

IS
 

.3
51

.5
1.

 

P
O

W
E

LL
 

• 
, 

$1
,3

20
.0

4 
- 

E
LL

 
• 
l 

$3
,3

41
.7

6 

00
06

25
41

5/
5/

20
12

 
00

08
61

42
/2

0/
20

13
 

I 
eo

oe
oo

si
S

/0
1/

50
1t

 
00

05
39

2 

00
00

23
6 

12
/2

7/
20

12
 

03
/2

3/
20

13
 

00
 

2 
25

 
C

A
6L

O
O

 

2 
25

 
.!A

ut
 

30
 

30
 

N
IC

O
LA

 

,3
0 

3D
 

50
0 

pn
oz

ls
rs

 
T

55
 6

00
M

G
 

00
 

30
 

51
04

55
0 

4f
0o

23
0I

02
/2

7/
20

02
 

f3
/o

e/
20

13
 

01
 

P
O

E
Z

IS
T

A
 

T
A

S
4f

O
M

G
 

• 
to

 
30

 
sI

C
lts

S
D

 

f t ose!oimizon 
02

 
iP

$E
Z

IS
T

A
 

10
06

00
M

G
 

to
 

30
 

so
ot

oo
s 

1)
22

/2
01

3 
01

/2
4/

20
13

 
05

 
Lu

ss
sr

v 
rA

e 
is

s.
eo

 
le

o 
30

 

!m
C

H
A

S
D

 
- 

lo
te

oj
 

'e
is

ts
sl

oa
o 

00
11

80
 

03
,2

s9
.6

1.
 

P
ag

e 
oa

f 
3 

4K
 



P
reliorloary F

indings 

A
pproved A

m
ount F

old 
M

odules M
inors 

$1,921.47 

$1,204.53 

i.... 
Li. 

0404210 0/29/2012 
10/10/2012 00 

R
E

Y
A

T
A

Z
 

C
A

P
300P

4G
 

tO
 

34 
X

A
V

IE
R

 
V

A
R

E
LA

 
$2,094.77 

l. 
T

 
6004310 8/20/2013 

111/13/2012 
01 

R
E

F
A

T
A

Z
 

C
A

P
300M

O
 

60 
30 

,l(A
V

lE
e 

.V
A

R
8I.A

 
$2,094.77 

I 

12 
11/27/2012,00 I 

:90.IA
fIIP

IA
 9 

$4464. 

I 

$5500320 

ploaide500tO
te4S

t42 
W

rltrerrpreocrbrthetsform
ediclnal drugn —

(1) 
A

 w
ritten pretcsiptlonferam

edidnst drug Issued by a healthcarepeactitlenerllcenuad bylaw
 to prascrthe 

such deeg m
ust beingiblypsirfed or ryysedsous to be capable of being understood by the plsaeeracist tIR

ing tIre preocription; m
ast contain the sane of theprncdbiog 

the 

nanre and strength of Ibe drag prescribed, the qraaetlty of the drug prescribed, aod the directions fee Inc of the drug nrust be dated; and noant be signed by the prescribing practitioner 

on rheday w
hen S

ow
ed. H

ow
ever, a prescription that is electranicafy generated end traesedtsed m

ost contain the noane of thu presoiblrrg practitioner, the nam
e end strength of the 

drug prescribed, the qaaertltyef the drug prescribed in nonrerrralfocm
sat, and rise directiorn for m

e of the dnag end m
ust be dated and signed by the prescribing practitioner oelpon the 

day tw
eed, w

hich signature m
ay hem

 
arrelectrenlcform

at as defined Ins. eo&
000f4). 

(2) 
A

w
dttenprenoiptioe face cantroled taalrotonce listed in chapter 893 m

ast haste she quaetby of site dreg prescribed O
s both tests and num

erf ral ferrnats. m
an be dated w

ish the 

iaoedm
entlt m

eittan not err the face of the preoctiption. and m
uss be either w

ritten on 
a standardIsed cnsrnterfelt'proof prescdption pad predeced by a vender approved by the 

departm
ent orelectroulcollypretcn'bed an that rerrrr Is coed c 408.0011. A

te coudition of belirgan approved vendor, a prescription pad vendor m
ott subm

it a m
oolhly report to the 

departm
ent w

hich 
as a einkearrs, docum

ents the nanther of pretctlption pads sold and tdentftet the poedtrasers. T
he departm

ent m
ay, by role, require the repm

sing of addItional 

infetm
atloft 

F
lorida stettrtetos.02e P

iling of certain prescrlptions.—
P

dotinrrg contained In slsrs chapter thai he cosotroed to prohibit a plrassraclnt licensed In thin stein from
 fflhrg or rtftt9rga 

prescdptine w
hich inonfte bra lrennacylocased in this state or in arsuttser state and trot beentrantferredfrm

n otto pharm
acy to enotirer by any m

eans, indtrdlrsg any etectroeto 

m
eow

, under the fegow
leg conditions: 

1) 
P

rIor hi depentingany transferred prescription, the dinpevtingplrerm
aclst s, either serbaip or by any elecirordc m

eant, do I of the follow
ing; 

(el 
ddvfte the patinnt that the peeocrnrrinn on file at the other pharrsrecy m

ost he canceled before It m
ay ha filled or reflted. 

(b) 
D

eterm
ine that the preocripeher Is oaitd used on fIle at the other pharm

acy and titer the prescription m
ay be O

od or retIR
ed, a requested, inacr.erdance w

ith the proscriber's Intent 

enpreoned on the pcesceiptlor. 

(c) 
N

otlfytheplserm
anlet orpham

racyw
here the prescription inur file that the prescription 

trust he canceled. 

)d) 
tncordinw

rtting, orbyw
tyelectrenlcm

eatw
theprescrlpsineorder. thenenreof thepham

tacyotw
hfchthe prercelpeine w

asor l she saoeef the 
drag atd the original em

oraredlepensed, tire date of origInal dispensing, and the nunrber of rernaleing anthorloed refIt 
fe) 

O
btain the consent of the prescriber rorha raffling of the yrescription w

hen the prnscflpfins, in the dltpentitrgpharotaclot't pw
lesslenalJedgm

est. no reqtdret A
ery Interference 

w
hh she professional judgm

ent of thn diopesrurg phennacrst by any pharm
acIst or pharm

acy perndonn, or Ito agents or em
ployeeo, shalt be grom

eodo for dltdplioe. 

- 
Last 

M
em

ber F
irst 

M
X

 
W

ritten D
ate 

F
illed D

ate 
O

P
 

M
D

C
 door 

IQ
5y 

O
S

 
M

D
 F

irst 
M

D
 lust 

—
 

tfY
JS

e.58,0/1012013 
01/10/2913 00 

T
R

IP
IA

 
T

A
B

 
30 

:00809A
e 

14052,105 

A
ilJU

 "ift 
60)4841 

11/29/2012 
11/30/2012 

00 
1R

U
V

A
D

A
 

T
A

B
 

:30 
j30 

A
I.0C

trlT
R

O
 

t'irat rererrtp nncIat'r, 

lhsrlnaryP
indlsqo 

A
m

ount 
irus 

$0.50! 
. 

,00 
$0.00; 

- 
50.00, 

P
sI recoupm

ent. Invalid prevcriphcn. T
raitS

 
A

ppeal lellerldocesm
ents received; 

prescription record does net coninin the original 
how

ever, iooufflciast a im
nend 

am
ount dlnpenoad as raqtthed per F

loride S
tesute 

.flnditgo. T
S

eretoi'e. thrdm
ga sift 

65.028(4S
oaastA

w
ftdl$Ialute. 

yag an 
oua°4 

l't'ansF
er 

A
ppeal lenerldacum

erlo recoived; 
prescrIption record does net contain the originS

 
, 

how
ever, iosuffcieed to em

end 

esseta'd diepatnad as required per F
innide " 

findisgo. T
herefore. 

R
vdings stIll 

$2,094.77! 465.026 (d), S
ea intl . for fui otalsite. 

52,094.71 stand. 

F
ull recoupnsens. Invalid preacrifttiott. T

ratsofar 
preocrlpllors record doeo fbI conieS

 the original 
am

eunl diopensed at requIred per F
lorida S

lalode 
485.026(d). A

ddltinaredy, P
rescription does roe 

A
ppeal iotterfdecurr,errls received; 

conform
 to all regulatory reqsdrerneslo. M

issing 
how

ever, inouffcienl to am
end 

quantity at required per F
lorida olalide 456.42. B

ee 
firthvgs. 'flrecef ore. tindinge otli 

54464j1aa0 P
age ferM

I n. 
. 

, 
t4jsland. 

522.990.201 
, 

, 

, ! 

P
age 2 of 2 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of all peopte in Honda through integrated 
John H.. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 24, 2014 

Vicki McConnell, PharmD 
556 Florida Central Parkway, Suite 1044 
Longwood, FL 32750 

RE: Request for Declaratory Statement 

Dear Ms. McConnell: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, February 11, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Convention Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. The meeting will begin at 1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh. state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444 ext: 3367. 

Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

PLEASE DISREGARD THE PREVIOUS LETTER YOU RECEIVED THAT STATED THE MEETING 
STARTED AT 9:00A.M. 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 . Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 8501245-4292• FAX 8501413-6982 YOUTUBE: fidoh 



FLORiDA HOSPITAL 
Home Infusion LLP 

October 17 2013 FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK Florida Board of Pharmacy 
CLERK tngefSanaTers 

4052 Bald Cypress Way DATE NOv 0 8 2013 
Tallahassee, Fl 32399 

Request for Declaratory Statement 

Esteemed Board Members, 

We would like the Board of Pharmacy to make a declaratory statement in regards to ARNP's 
prescribing and whose name should appear on the prescription label. If an ARNP writes a 
prescription is it mislabeling if the name of the physician, under whose auspices the ARNP 
practices, appears on the label as the prescriber? 

We are aware that under the Nurse Practice Act 464.0012(3) an ARNP can monitor and alter 
drug therapies and may initiate appropriate therapies for "certain" conditions and perform 
additional functions as may be determined by rule in accordance with section 464.003(2) of the 
Florida statues. Our concerns are twofold. First, since pharmacies are not routinely provided with 
a copy of the ARNP protocol how can we assure that their signature is for "certain" conditions 
within their scope of practice? The second concern may be outside the scope/consideration of the 
board but has the potential to impact pharmacies on a regular basis and ultimately affect our 
ability to practice: insurance companies may not recognize and therefore may not reimburse for 
prescriptions that carry the ARNPs name/signature. 

The Board of Pharmacy regulations state that the prescriber's name should appear on the 
prescription. We did not find a definition of prescriber only a practitioner as defined in 
893.02(20).. .a physician licensed pursuant to Chapter 458, a dentist licensed pursuant to Chapter 
466, a veterinarian licensed pursuant to Chapter 474, an osteopathic physician licensed pursuant 
to Chapter 459, a naturopath licensed pursuant to Chapter 462, or a podiatric physician licensed 
pursuant to Chapter 461. Although 893.02 applies to controlled substances, we do not see RN or 
ARNP defined in this section. 

Thank you for your clarification of this matter. 

Sincerely, 

RECEIVED 

Vicki McConnell, Pharm.D. OCT 2 5 2013 

Director of Pharmacy 
Pherm8cy 

Florida Hospital Home Infusion, LLP 

Florida Suite 1044 FL 327500407.865.54890800.446.25640 Fax 407.865.5479o 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & mprove the health 

_______________ 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 24, 2014 

Mark Schneider 
1100 Central Park Drive, Suite 500 
Sanford, FL 32771 

RE: Request for Variance of Waivers 

Dear Mr. Schneider: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, February 11, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Convention Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. The meeting will begin at 1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444 ext: 3367. 

Sincerely, 

Gum bie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

PLEASE DISREGARD THE PREVIOUS LETTER YOU RECEIVED THAT STATED THE MEETING 
STARTED AT 9:00A.M. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy lthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 . FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



FILED 

Team CaVE 
PHARMACY 

12/2/2013 

Florida Department of Health 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 
Mark Whitten 
Executive Director 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Bin #C04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 

Variance request for: 64B 16-28.820 Sterile Products and Special Parenteral/Enteral 
Compounding 

Mr. Whitten, 

TeamCare Infusion Orlando, Inc. (PH20960), TeamCare Infusion, Inc. (PH15891) herby 
requests a variance(s) or waiver(s) to rule 64B16-28.820(1)(a) as to "limited in scope of 
pharmacy practice to render sterile products and parenterallenteral compounding functions". 

64B16-28,820 
(1) Sterile Products and Parenterai/Enteral Compounding. 
(a) A sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy is a type of special pharmacy as provided by 
Section 465.0196, F.S., which is limited in scope of pharmacy practice to render sterile products and 
parenteral/enteral compounding functions. This pharmacy practice facilitates the utilization of certain institutional 
therapeutic measures by patients in the home environment or by patients in an institutional environment where 
such pharmacy service is unavailable. Pharmacy services, sterile products and parenteralfenteral products 
provided by a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy pursuant to prescription as 
defined by Section 465.003(13), F.S., shall be limited to the compounding and/or dispensing of: 
1. Sterile preparations for parenteral therapy, parenteral nutrItion, and/or 
2. Sterile preparations for jejunostomy feeding and sterile irrigation solutions, and/or 
3. Sterile preparations of cytotoxic or antineo-plastic agents, and/or 
4. Sterile products (i.e., injectables, eye drops, etc.). 

I am requesting that the two pharmacies listed above, be allowed to compound Non-Sterile 
medicines. The Florida Board of Pharmacy has no type of permit that allows both, Sterile and 
Non-Sterile compounding without multiple permits. TeamCare's pharmacies are not in the retail 
business and have no desire to be in the retail business. For the past 15 years, TeamCare has 
contracted with numerous HMO's in Florida to provide the services as outlined in 64B16- 
28.820. We are truly a Stand alone P&E pharmacy. Our hours of operation are very felxable so 
that we can meet the needs of all our patients. While our pharmacits are on site at our pharmacies 
for multiple hours, they are not on a posted schedule, they are available upon the needs of our 
patients. We are available 24 hours 365 days and every holiday is covered. Our business model is 
much like a hospital pharmacy, with the exception that we provide care to the patients in their 
home settings. For these reasons we do not want to seek a community pharmacy permit, but we 
would like to be able to provide non-sterile medicines to our contracted HMO patients. 

TeamCare Pharmacy Services, Inc. 1100 Central Park Drive, Suite 500 407-328-8787 407-330-4746 fax 



We are experts at compounding and wish to also compound non-sterile medicines. I have been 
advised that this rule restricts us from doing so. 

I propose that the following will take place in the event that our request is approved; 

1) We will not co-mingle non-sterile and sterile procedures. 
2) We will prepare non-sterile compounds in a separate clean area away from our sterile 

cleanroom. 
3) We intend to construct a separate clean room with a certification of ISO 8 or better and 

have the compounding environment exhausted to the outside air, not back into the 
common air of the pharmacy. When non-sterile powder medicines are compounded, they 
can become air-born and ingested by the pharmacy staff and/or general public. This 
environment for non-sterile compounding will eliminate the air-born particles from the 
medicines to reach the pharmacy staff or the general public outside of this room. 

Currently as the board is aware, there are no such requirements for non-sterile compounding. In 
fact there are no requirements at all for non-sterile compounding (as to the compounding itself). 
So while these non-sterile compounds are prepared in close proximity to the general public, 
unfiltered outside air, no specific clean work surfaces, etc... We propose a better way to provide 
a much safer product to the general public. 

In addition to the above we will also: 

1) Obey all prescription requirements and only dispense "patient specific" medicines for 
individual patients. 

2) Not bulk compound or deliver non ordered medicines to anyone including physicians. 
3) Apply all dispensing laws and rules for sterile-compounded medicines (where 

applicable). 

These self-imposed policies would provide a safer and better quality of dispensed 
medicines to the people in Florida. The proposed non-sterile compounding environment will also 
make the pharmacy a safer work place. 

If there is anything else I can provide you with or if you would like to speak with me, please 
contact my office. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Schneider 
President 

TeamCare Pharmacy Services, Inc. 1100 Central Park Drive, Suite 500 407-328-8787 407-330-4746 fax 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 24, 2014 

Sylvan D. Wong 
United Care Pharmacy, LLC 
13339 SW nd Street 
Miami, FL 33175 

RE: Request for Reduction of Hours 

Dear Mr. Wong: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Tuesday, February 11, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Convention Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. The meeting will begin at 1:00 p.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444 ext: 3367. 

Sin ey 

/Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

PLEASE DISREGARD THE PREVIOUS LETFER YOU RECEIVED THAT STATED THE MEETING 
STARTED AT 9:00A.M. 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHeaith.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



MON 09:05 AM 0 FAX NO. 0 P. 02/02 

UNITED CARE PHARMACY, LLC 

13339 SW 42nd ST 

MIAMI, FL, 33175 

Ph: 305-485-1021 

Fax: 

License: P1-I 26508 

Email: 

November 13, 2013 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Fax: 850-413-6982 

To whom it may concern, 

The following letter is to petition that the Board of Pharmacy would allow us to operate the 
prescription department 20 hours per week. At this moment, our pharmacy has only two 
Medicare Part-D contract and we do not have the DEA number yet. If approved, our new 
hours of operation will be Monday and Wednesday from 9:00 am to 4:00 pm, and Friday 
from 10:00 AM to closed Tuesday, Thursday, SaLurday and Sunday. We will 
upgrade our Policy and Procedure manual and provide our patients with an emergency 
number to contact the pharmacist after hours, 

Sincerely, 

U Wang, Pharmacy Manager 

PS 21512 



NABP Verified Pharmacy ProgramTM 
Providing a vital resource for the boards of pharmacy for use when 

making licensure and registration determinations. 

In the wake of the New England Compounding Center (NECC) tragedy, member state boards of 
pharmacy spoke out very clearly about the need to build regulatory uniformity among the states and 
enhance the services offered by the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy® (NABP®). Due to the 
strength and leadership of its member boards, NABP had a strong foundation to rapidly build and deploy 
services to assist member boards in their charge to protect the public health. Building from a wide range 
of existing services — including license verification; the Electronic Licensure Transfer Program® ; NABP 
Clearinghouse, which includes disciplinary information; accreditation; and inspection services — NABP 
developed the Verified Pharmacy TM (VPPTM) to assist member boards in enhancing the licensure 
processes they already have in place. 

What Is VPP? 

VPP, or the Verified Pharmacy Program, is an inspection service and 
information sharing network the boards of pharmacy may use to share critical 
inspection and licensing data with their fellow boards. Similar to the Electronic 
Licensure Transfer Program for pharmacists, VPP also facilitates what could be 
described as the nonresident pharmacy licensure transfer process. 

What Is VPP Meant to ? 
VPP creates e-Profiles for each pharmacy and links these facility e-Profiles 

to key personnel e-Profiles, including those of the pharmacist-in-charge (PlC) in 

the state of domicile as well as any nonresident PICs. 

The program is meant to enhance what the state boards of pharmacy are already doing in terms of determining 
qualifications for pharmacy licensure and ensure that the boards have complete and accurate information for making 
licensure decisions on nonresident pharmacies. 

What Does Recognizing and/or Requiring VPP Mean for the ? 
The boards can recognize VPP and/or require that nonresident pharmacies apply through VPP when seeking to 

obtain or renew licensure. If an e-Profile for the applicant does not already exist, one will be created and applicable 
alerts pertaining to that facility's disciplinary and inspection history will automatically be pushed to the board of 
pharmacy. Additionally, participating boards will have access to the e-Profiles and will have the capability to search for 
facilities by a variety of categories. The boards also have the ability to attach their own inspection reports and other 
documentation to the e-Profiles. 

Recognizing and/or requiring VPP does not necessarily mean that the board is requiring that an inspection be conducted 
by NABP. When a VPP application from a pharmacy is received, NABP reviews and verifies the data submitted by the 
pharmacy. This includes any recent inspection reports, if available. Should an applicant submit a "qualified" inspection report 
and/or already have a qualified inspection report attached to the pharmacy e-Profile through the Inspection Clearinghouse, 
that pharmacy will not require a new inspection and all qualifying information will be pushed directly to the state board of 
pharmacy where the pharmacy is seeking licensure. In addition, the information will be provided to any other states where the 
pharmacy holds a license in order to provide supplemental data for the states to utilize when making licensing decisions. 

If the applicant is found to not have a "qualified" inspection, an inspection will be scheduled through NABP. All VPP 
inspections are conducted by licensed pharmacists. 

NABP provides all data directly to the applicable state boards of pharmacy and does not render any judgment on an 
applicant, as this authority is left to the state boards. 

National Association of Boards of Pharmacy® . 



What Is a "Qualified" Inspection and What Inspection Forms Are 

A qualified inspection is one that has been conducted within the past 18-24 
months, if the facility provides routine retail pharmacy services, or within the past 
12 months if it provides compounding services, and includes the appropriate 
modules of inspection standards depending on the services provided. 

The simple presence of an inspection by the state of domicile does not 
necessarily mean the nonresident facility meets nonresident states' requirements. 
Further, if a facility has been performing sterile compounding, it is possible that it 

may not have been subjected to a thorough compliance inspection by a properly 
trained inspector in many years, if ever. 

NABP recently convened a task force to compile licensure standards that 
are consistent across the states with the purpose of structuring a uniform inspection form. Drawing from the expertise 
provided during the task force meeting, this form is under development and will assist in further defining a qualified 
inspection. The form will continue to evolve to meet the states' needs. In addition, NABP has worked to develop uniform 
compounding inspection forms using elements of several different states' inspection forms that inspect to United States 
Pharmacopeia Chapter <795> and Chapter <797> as a minimum standard for compounding. These will also evolve to 
further meet the needs identified by the member boards of pharmacy. 

NABP is also exploring the possibility of forming specialized working groups to develop inspection form modules based 
on the varying types of pharmacy services. 

The uniform, qualified inspections can also be coupled with self-reported facility information in order to identify sterile 
compounding facilities. 

What Are the Fees for VPP? 

If recognizing and/or requiring VPP, and the board has the ability to pass the costs of an inspection along to the 
applicant/licensee, the board can direct nonresident pharmacies to NABP to begin the application process. 

VPP applicants pay fees dependent on the type of pharmacy: 

• Routine Retail: $1,995 
• Nonsterile Compounding or Large Mail Order: $2,500 
• Sterile Compounding or Institutional: $3,000 

If an applicant already has a resident state inspection deemed qualified through NABP processes, the applicant is 

refunded all but a $500 processing fee. Pharmacies seeking licensure in multiple states will likely experience savings in 

inspection fees by avoiding costs associated with multiple state inspections. 

For those states that must bear the costs of the inspections, NABP still recommends that states send their applicants 
through the VPP process and subsidize the inspection fee for the applicants. The Association may be able to work with 
the board on a discounted inspection fee. 

The fees were developed based on estimates of NABP's costs of performing inspections and other processing 
functions and are not intended to generate excess revenue. Any excess revenue will be used to support member boards 
of pharmacy through programs and services including, but not limited to, additional compliance training, the development 
of uniform inspection forms, and the development of other technology and tools to perform inspections. 

For more information or to apply for VPP, visit www.nabp.netfprograms/Iicensure/verified-pharmacy-program. 

Or contact VPP staff via phone at 847/391-4406 or via e-mail at vpp@nabp.net. 

National Association of Boards of Pharmacy 
1600 Feehanville Drive, Mount Prospect, IL 60056 
(P) 847/391-4406 (F) 847/391-4502 www.nabp.net 

1-16-13 



D
ivision ol 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 
1/2212014 

11:27:35P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
I of8 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 23:27:23 
O

N
D

 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 
P

S
 

51318 
11/01/2013 

C
ales, S

cott G
ary 

05/08/1973 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

10103 C
let H

arvey R
d 

G
len S

aint M
ary, 

F
L 

32040 
P

S
 

51319 
11/01/2013 

M
cgrath, B

obbi Jo 
03/21/1968 

U
niversity O

f K
ansas 

M
ain C

am
pus 

209 A
rizona A

ve. 
H

olton, K
S

 
66436 

P
S

 
51320 

11/04/2013 
H

o, C
hienT

hanh 
06/21/1981 

H
arding U

niveristy 
15355 S

w
 21S

t P
lace 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33027 
P

S
 

51321 
11/04/2013 

M
artinez, M

iteisy 
12/22/1978 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

2477 O
cean V

iew
 B

lvd 
A

pt #104 
O

coee, F
L 

34761 

P
S

 
51322 

11/05/2013 
C

hittle, D
ennis Jam

es 
11/26/1950 

U
niversity O

f M
ichigan 

A
nn A

rbor 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

323 14-6320 
P

S
 

51323 
11/05/2013 

F
aglie, Lance 

C
opeland 

05/05/1986 
U

niversity O
f G

eorgia 
467 P

ooler P
kw

y 
P

ooler, G
A

 31322 

P
S

 
51324 

11/05/2013 
G

alantis, S
telios 

Lam
bros 

03/27/1986 
U

niversity O
f N

orth 
C

arolina C
hapel H

ill 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

323 14-6320 
P

S
 

51325 
11/05/2013 

H
am

m
ons, B

radley 
S

tevenson 
12/06/1979 

U
niversity O

f 
M

ississippi M
ain 

C
am

pus 

600 Ironw
ood Lane 

R
aleigh, M

S
 

39153 

p5 
51326 

11/06/2013 
G

ow
ler, A

im
ee Joy 

11/12/1984 
U

niversity O
f A

rizona 
1600 S

w
 A

rcher R
oad 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32610 

P
S

 
51327 

11/06/2013 
S

alam
a, R

am
y 

04/07/1 984 
Long Island U

niversity 
B

rooklyn C
am

pus 
2220 S

 U
s H

w
y 

1 
F

ort P
ierce, F

L 
34950 

P
S

 
51328 

11/06/2013 
H

oIt,G
retchen M

arie 
11/13/1969 

A
lbanyC

ollegeO
f 

P
harm

acy 
529 C

entral A
ve 

D
unkirk, N

Y
 

14048 

P
S

 
51329 

11/06/2013 
llkevitch, A

lm
a 

07/21/1988 
M

idw
estern S

tate 
U

niversity 
N

ot P
racticing In F

lorida 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

P
S

 
51330 

11/06/2013 
Johnson, B

rian 
A

ndrew
 

10/26/1987 
U

niversity O
f K

ansas 
M

ain C
am

pus 
2228 P

inecrest C
ircle 

S
alina, K

S
 

67401 

P
S

 
51331 

11/06/2013 
K

ebede, M
ekebebe 

G
irm

achew
 

02/08/1 982 
S

outh U
niversity 

4240 Y
oungstow

n C
ir 

S
tone M

ountain, G
A

 
30083 

P
S

 
51332 

11/06/2013 
M

anfredi, Lorraine 
A

nn 
07/22/1952 

U
niversity O

f R
hode 

Island 
47 V

illage P
laza W

ay 
N

orth S
cituate, R

I 
02857 

P
S

 
51333 

11/06/2013 
S

anger, M
atthew

 K
arl 

12/14/1967 
C

reighton U
niversity 

105 W
estern A

ve 
W

aupaca, W
I 

54981 
P

S
 

51334 
11/06/2013 

V
uurens, R

odney K
im

 
12/05/1954 

F
erris S

tate U
niversity 

640S
 E

xpressw
ay 77 S

te 
R

aym
ondville, T

X
 

78580 

P
S

 
51335 

11/07/2013 
O

'M
ara, K

eliana 
Leilani 

08/08/1982 
U

niversity O
f N

orth 
C

arolina C
hapel H

ill 
11001 D

avid S
tone D

r. 
C

hapel H
ill, N

C
 

27517 

P
S

 
51336 

11/07/2013 
H

ernandez A
rnaldy, 

C
hristie M

arie 
09/30/1 984 

U
niversity O

f P
uerto 

R
ico M

edical S
cienc 

383 A
ve F

.D
. R

oosevelt 
S

an Juan, P
R

 
00918 

P
S

 
51337 

11/07/2013 
K

ocher, K
eith N

oel 
03/04/1962 

F
erris S

tate U
niversity 

1215 E
. M

ichigan 
Lansing, M

I 
48912 

P
S

 
51338 

11/07/2013 
F

rancois, Jean 
D

om
inique 

06/20/1979 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

1940 S
w

 129T
h T

errace 
M

iram
ar, F

L 
33027 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:27:35P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 2 of 8 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
51339 

11/07/2013 
A

lham
zaw

i, K
haled 

10/20/1977 
F

oreign S
chools 

6204 B
enjam

in R
oad 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33634 
P

S
 

51340 
11/08/2013 

M
ankaryous, N

ancy 
11/10/1985 

A
lbany C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
N

ot P
racticing In F

lorida 
P

 0 B
ox 6320 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

P
S

 
51341 

11/08/2013 
P

atel, A
rchita 

N
iranjan 

02/25/1985 
U

niversity O
f M

aryland 
S

chool O
f P

harm
acy 

23 P
ierside D

r A
pt 426 

B
altim

ore, M
D

 
21230 

P
S

 
51342 

11/08/2013 
T

ran, Long T
huan 

03/02/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
825 S

aint M
ichel D

rive 
R

ockledge, F
L 

32955 
P

S
 

51343 
11/08/2013 

D
iaz-Latorre, E

dgardo 
L 

03/18/1985 
U

niversity O
f P

uerto 
R

ico M
edical S

cienc 
iiii 

V
ine S

treet 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34743 

P
S

 
51344 

11/12/2013 
N

guyen, R
yan T

an 
12/29/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

5280 S
. John Y

oung P
kw

y 
O

rlando, F
L 

32839 
P

S
 

51345 
11/12/2013 

S
yed, A

yesha 
. 

09/25/1986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

4106 S
w

 190 A
ve 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33029 

P
S

 
51346 

11/12/2013 
B

astien, R
oudelyne 

12/12/1987 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

6201 
S

w
 8T

h S
t 

N
orth Lauderdale, F

L 
33068 

P
S

 
51347 

11/12/2013 
K

uppusam
y, 

A
nnadurai 

05114/1967 
F

oreign S
chools 

115 115 N
w

 S
anta F

e 
B

lvd 
H

igh S
prings, F

L 
32643 

P
S

 
51348 

11/12/2013 
B

ahorik, John S
cott 

02/28/1958 
U

niversity O
f C

incinnati 
M

ain C
am

pus 
1980 F

reedom
 P

arkw
ay 

W
ashington, 

IL 
61571 

P
S

 
51349 

11/12/2013 
B

elcourt, T
odd H

enry 
Jr 

11/15/1988 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

O
f P

har &
 A

llied H
 

44 S
traw

berry Lane 
S

outhington, C
T

 
06489 

P
S

 
51350 

11/12/2013 
E

spada T
orres, 

A
nabel 

07/20/1978 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

5409 C
onch S

hell 
P

1 
A

pollo B
each, F

L 
33572 

P
S

 
51351 

11/12/2013 
H

arter, A
rlen T

revor 
11/16/1 981 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1505 26T
h A

ve E
ast 

B
radenton, F

L 
34208 

P
S

 
51352 

11/12/2013 
R

ich, 
D

avid Jason 
05/06/1975 

U
niversity O

f G
eorgia 

153 H
ighw

oods P
arkw

ay 
N

ew
nan, G

A
 30265 

P
S

 
51353 

11/12/2013 
A

binanti, Joseph 
T

hom
as 

03/05/1951 
S

aint John'S
 U

niversity 
N

ew
 Y

ork 
82-68 164 S

treet 
Jam

aica, N
Y

 
11432 

P
S

 
51354 

11/12/2013 
B

iedenharn, T
odd 

C
hristopher 

06/15/1969 
U

niversity O
f C

incinnati 
M

ain C
am

pus 
9843 W

indisch R
oad 

W
est C

hester, O
H

 
45069 

P
5 

51355 
11/12/2013 

H
ow

ell, T
rishw

anda 
K

ristina 
07/22/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
6516 andover R

d 
andover, M

D
 20785 

P
S

 
51356 

11/12/2013 
F

altaoos, John K
am

el 
H

abeb 
08/04/1980 

F
oreign S

chools 
36515 U

 
S

 H
w

y 19 N
 

P
alm

 H
arbor, F

L 
34684 

P
S

 
51357 

11/13/2013 
K

ohli, A
shok 

12/14/1949 
T

exas S
outhern 

U
niversity 

11264 B
each B

lvd 
Jacksonville, 

F
L 

32246 

P
S

 
51358 

11/13/2013 
W

allace, M
arquita 

T
errieka 

06/17/1983 
F

lorida A
&

 M
 

U
niversity 

5108 N
orw

ood A
venue 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32208 

P
S

 
51359 

11/13/2013 
Joachin, S

abine 
10/22/1981 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

220 C
ape H

arbour Loop 
U

nit 102 
B

radenton, F
L 

34212 

P
S

 
51360 

11/13/2013 
Y

ouw
akim

, Ledia 
M

orcos S
alam

a 
08/17/1988 

F
oreign S

chools 
3200 Lake W

ashington R
d 

M
elbourne, 

F
L 

32934 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dx1515:01I22/2014 23:27:23 O

N
D

 



C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2201 
: Pharm

acist 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

D
ivision 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:27:35P
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 3 of 8 

PL
 Location 

P
L A

ddress 

P
S

 

P
S

 

51361 

51362 

11/14/2013 

11/14/2013 

R
ouhani, A

u 

D
onlow

, Latricia 
Y

vonne 

09/04/1982 

02/12/1 987 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

O
f 

1201 
C

ounty R
d #581 

6606 C
am

den B
ay D

rive 
A

pt 207 

1568 A
bbot A

venue 

W
esley C

hapel, 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33635 

M
errick, N

Y
 

11566 
P

S
 

51363 
11/14/2013 

A
braham

, B
lessy 

M
ary 

04/1 8/1 988 
A

lbany C
ollege 

P
harm

acy 
Livonia, M

l 
48154 

P
5 

51364 
11/14/2013 

B
ennett, A

lexandria 
N

icole 
02/01/1985 

W
ayne S

tate U
niversity 

15715 E
dgew

ood 

2325 F
lat B

ush A
ve 

B
rooklyn, N

Y
 

11234 
P

S
 

51365 
11/14/2013 

G
arcia V

azquez, 
M

aria M
agdalena 

12/25/1968 
Long Island U

niversity 
C

entral O
ffice 

F
ajardo, P

R
 

00738 
P

5 
51366 

11/14/2013 
N

unez R
om

an, 
Y

esenia 
12/05/1979 

U
niversity O

f P
uerto 

R
ico M

edical S
cienc 

4203 
M

arginal 

9072 N
w

 6T
h C

t 
P

lantation, F
L 

33324 
P

S
 

51367 
11/14/2013 

T
ripathi, S

halini 
09/19/1979 

N
ova S

outheastern 
U

niversity 
26T

h S
t. 

S
. 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

P
S

 
51368 

11/14/2013 
U

m
ar, A

sm
au A

 
09/15/1987 

F
lorida A

 &
 

U
niversity 

12200 N
e 6T

h A
venue A

pt 

33712 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 
33161 

P
S

 
51369 

11/14/2013 
C

astor, V
eronese 

03/14/1983 
F

lorida A
 

U
niversity 

#108 G
rand 

D
rive 

O
rlando, F

L 
32810 

P
s 

51370 
11/15/2013 

T
rieu, H

oc Q
uang 

09/06/1 978 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

C
anyon 

G
ulf T

o 
B

lvd 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33765 

P
S

 
51371 

11/15/2013 
M

ikhail, D
iana 

12/06/1983 
Long Island U

niversity 
B

rooklyn C
am

pus 
B

ay 

S
tillm

eadow
 D

rive 
V

alrico, F
L 

33596 
P

S
 

51372 
11/15/2013 

H
ahn, K

im
berly A

nn 
09/05/1973 

U
niversity O

f 
C

arolina C
hapel H

ill 
Interstate D

rive 
S

an A
ntonio, T

X
 

78219 
P

S
 

51373 
11/15/2013 

S
oni, V

ipul 
Jagdishchandra 

01/15/1965 
B

utler U
niversity 

M
ilton, F

L 
32583 

P
S

 
51374 

11/15/2013 
B

arrett, Jill 
W

illiam
son 

07/13/1970 
U

niversity O
f 

M
ississippi M

ain 
C

am
pus 

7390 B
ain D

rive 

6203 P
alm

view
 C

t. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33625 

P
s 

51375 
11/15/2013 

C
unliffe, T

hom
as 

E
dw

ard 
05/03/1984 

N
ova 

U
niversity 

C
arr 841 D

f 003921 
G

uaynabo, P
R

 
00969 

P
S

 
51376 

11/18/2013 
D

elgado R
abIes, 

R
afael R

uben 
03/06/1983 

U
niversity O

f P
uerto 

R
ico M

edical S
cienc 

401 
S

. B
allenger H

w
y 

F
lint, M

l 
48532 

P
S

 
51377 

11/19/2013 
T

hom
as, H

aleena 
M

ichelle 
11/17/1974 

F
erris 

U
niversity 

B
everly H

ills, F
L 

34465 
P

S
 

51378 
11/19/2013 

O
gden, Lauren 

E
lizabeth 

09/1 7/1 980 
M

ercer U
niversity 

&
 M

 

4020 N
 

H
w

y 

4107 S
helter B

ay D
rive 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34746 

P
S

 
51379 

11/19/2013 
U

lysse, S
hasly 

04/18/1989 
F

lorida 
U

niversity 
M

 
3737 O

cita D
r 

O
rlando, F

L 
32837 

P
S

 

I 

51380 

51381 

11/19/2013 

11/19/2013 

B
easley, R

onald 
A

nthony 
B

aker, N
ichole R

enee 

11/02/1989 

01/25/1977 

F
lorida A

 
U

niversity 
R

osem
an U

niversity 
2389E

W
indem

ill Lane 
Las V

egas, N
V

 
89123 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
4 23:27:23 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
4
 
1
1
:
2
7
:
3
5
P
M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 4 of 8 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 
23:27:23 O

N
D

 

R
ank 

LicN
br 

P
S

 
51382 

11/19/2013 
A

w
ad, M

arina 
Y

oussef 
02/20/1989 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 
U

niversity 
5233 Leeds R

d 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33907 

P
S

 
51383 

11/19/2013 
Z

aky, M
yriam

 M
agdy 

07/17/1986 
F

oreign S
chools 

255 S
unrise A

ve 
P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33480 

P
S

 
51384 

11/20/2013 
S

ivkov, A
lexander 

08/14/1981 
Long island U

niversity 
B

rooklyn C
am

pus 
150 C

orbin P
lace #2 P

 
B

rooklyn, N
Y

 
11235 

P
S

 
51385 

11/20/2013 
Jarek, A

shley N
icole 

08/07/1987 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1037 N

w
 50T

h T
errace 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32605 

P
5 

51386 
11/21/2013 

R
hoades, Jenna 

A
lisori 

11/09/1985 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
830 O

hio A
ve 

Lynn H
aven, F

L 
32444 

P
S

 
51387 

11/22/2013 
R

ansbottom
, H

eath 
M

atthew
 

02/05/1988 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

7718 Lake V
ista C

ourt A
pt 

201 
B

radenton, F
L 

34202 

P
S

 
51388 

11/22/2013 
O

'N
eei, C

ory D
ean 

06/14/1976 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

530 T
rum

an A
ve 

K
ey W

est, F
L 

33040 

P
S

 
51389 

11/25/2013 
S

alibi, Julie M
 

05/02/1986 
Lake E

rie C
oil. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. 01 
P

harm
. 

2344 Im
m

okalee R
d. 

N
aples, F

L 
34110 

P
S

 
51390 

11/25/2013 
B

ronk, E
rika N

 
04/07/1976 

A
lbany C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
1315 E

ast B
eecher H

ill R
d 

O
w

ego, N
Y

 
13827 

P
S

 
51391 

11/25/2013 
C

ohen, K
enneth R

 
09/17/1953 

idaho S
tate U

niversity 
271-11 76T

h A
venue 

N
ew

 H
yde P

ark, N
Y

 
11040 

P
5 

51392 
11/25/2013 

Le, P
huoc H

uy 
04/21/1984 

R
egis U

niversity 
5512 S

edgefield S
treet 

O
rlando, F

L 
32808 

P
S

 
51393 

11/25/2013 
F

riesieben, M
elinda 

K
ristine 

05/23/1978 
C

reighton U
niversity 

i 665 A
urora C

f R
m

 2221 
A

urora, C
O

 
80045 

P
S

 
51394 

11/25/2013 
G

alician, K
orey 

M
atthew

 
09/06/1984 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1702 V
estal D

rive 
C

oral S
prings, F

L 
33071 

P
s 

51395 
11/25/2013 

G
iies, B

reanna 
G

rayson 
03/12/1982 

S
outh C

arolina C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy 

8422 N
avarre P

kw
y 

N
avarre, F

L 
32566 

P
S

 
51396 

11/25/2013 
H

egazy, A
hm

ed 
M

oham
m

ed 
02/10/1988 

U
niversity O

f T
oledo 

4811 C
larem

ont S
t #2 

M
idland, M

l 
48642 

P
S

 
51397 

11/25/2013 
M

urphy, H
anna V

 
07/07/1972 

Lake E
rie C

oil. O
f 

O
steo M

ed. S
ch. O

f 
P

harm
. 

11320 W
alden Loop 

P
arrish, F

L 34219 

P
S

 
51398 

11/25/2013 
S

im
m

ons, Leah W
hitt 

06/07/1989 
U

niversity O
f 

M
ississippi M

ain 
C

am
pus 

146 S
. T

hom
as S

t S
uite A

 
T

upelo, M
S

 
38801 

P
S

 
51399 

11/26/2013 
M

ckinnon, T
aS

hae 
D

urreil 
01/13/1987 

F
lorida A

 &
 M

 

U
niversity 

4468 C
ool E

m
erald D

rive 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32303 

P
S

 
51400 

12/02/2013 
N

guyen, H
uy 

07/23/1981 
T

ouro C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

3333 B
roadw

ay A
pt E

22A
 

N
ew

 Y
ork, N

Y
 

10031 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:27:35P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

P
age 5 of 8 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:27:23 O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
51401 

12/0212013 
K

heireddine, S
unny 

R
ockhill 

08/03/1984 
W

ingate U
niversity 

S
chool O

f P
harm

acy 
4327 W

aterbury D
rive 

C
harlotte, N

C
 28209 

P
S

 
51402 

12/02/2013 
G

raum
enz, M

itchell 
Lee 

07/02/1986 
S

t Louis C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

212 M
ilIw

ell D
rive 

M
aryland H

eights, M
O

 
63122 

P
S

 
51403 

12/02/2013 
K

oebel, C
im

eon Israel 
04/04/1985 

M
ercer U

niversity 
3228 W

rightsboro R
oad 

A
ugusta, G

A
 

30909 

P
S

 
51404 

12/02/2013 
V

anniali P
atel, R

adha 
S

atish 
07/03/1985 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 
600 S

outh 43R
d S

treet 
P

hiladelphia, P
A

 
19104 

P
S

 
51405 

12/02/2013 
P

litnick, R
obert J 

02/28/1 967 
A

lbany C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

12 Jupiter Lane 
A

lbany, N
Y

 
12205 

P
S

 
51406 

12/02/2013 
Lange, R

aquel M
aria 

08/16/1979 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
3712 E

 E
sther S

treet 
O

rlando, F
L 

32812 

P
S

 
51407 

12/02/2013 
P

ersaud, R
obert 

A
nthony 

03/21/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
2235 M

argarita C
ourt 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34741 

P
S

 
51408 

12/02/2013 
P

aup, Jeffrey E
ugene 

06/12/1987 
U

niversity O
f M

aryland 
S

chool O
f P

harm
acy 

8905 B
elair R

d 
N

ottingham
, M

D
 

21236 

P
5 

51409 
12/02/2013 

N
eason, D

eanna 
T

rudy 
03/21/1 962 

H
ow

ard U
niversity 

800 Jam
es B

ow
ie D

rive 
N

ew
 B

oston, T
X

 
75570 

P
S

 
51410 

12/02/2013 
M

cbride, A
ric W

illiam
 

07/18/1969 
M

idw
estern S

tate 
U

niversity 
1306 Lucas A

ve #1004 
S

aint Louis, M
O

 
63103 

P
S

 
51411 

12/02/2013 
K

ovacs, Jam
es A

llen 
08/1 2/1 949 

R
utgers T

he S
tate 

U
niversity C

entral O
ff 

5001 
C

ollins A
ve A

pt 15-D
 

M
iam

i B
each, F

L 
33140 

P
S

 
51412 

12/02/2013 
A

uerbach, D
ouglas 

A
ndrew

 
03/24/1972 

O
hio S

tate U
niversity 

M
ain C

am
pus 

3402 Lenox V
illage D

rive 
#242 

F
airlaw

n, O
H

 
44333 

P
S

 
51413 

12/02/2013 
B

arriger, R
obert G

uy 
04/24/1954 

U
niversity O

f K
entucky 

3545W
 86T

h S
treet 

Indianapolis, IN
 

46268 

P
S

 
51414 

12/02/2013 
B

elhom
m

e, R
oath' 

N
audell 

03/16/1985 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

9148 S
W

 21S
t C

t A
pt F

 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33428 

P
5 

51415 
12/02/2013 

Lee, B
ernard R

yan 
08/24/1 980 

R
utgers T

he S
tate 

U
niversity C

entral O
ff 

1055 79T
h S

t S
outh 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33707 

P
5 

51416 
12/02/2013 

P
atton, Jana L 

04/06/1980 
S

outh U
niversity 

1027 S
outh M

ain S
t 

M
oultrie, 

G
A

 31768 

P
5 

51417 
12/02/2013 

Z
eidan, M

oham
ad 

M
oham

ad G
haleb 

11/05/1984 
Lebanon A

m
erican 

U
niversity 

4106W
 Lake M

ary B
lvd 

S
uite 130 

Lake M
ary, F

L 
32746 

P
S

 
51418 

12/03/2013 
N

akhla, B
alsam

 
S

aiden 
01/10/1953 

F
oreign S

chools 
10 C

ypress D
rive 

A
lbany, N

Y
 

12211 

P
S

 
51419 

12/04/2013 
B

ollaert, S
ara 

E
lizabeth 

08/31/1989 
C

reighton U
niversity 

12017 V
illanova D

r A
pt 

102 
O

rlando, F
L 

32837 

P
S

 
51420 

12/05/2013 
B

ecker, R
ichard P

aul 
Jr 

02/04/1 965 
P

hiladelphia C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy A

nd S
ci 

2800 E
 S

unrise B
lvd U

nit 
1 7E

 
F

ort Lauderdale, F
L 

33304 

P
S

 
51421 

12/05/2013 
E

voghlian, M
ojgan 

F
arzaneh 

09/12/1965 
T

em
ple U

niversity 
1701 

W
elsh R

d S
te4 

P
hiladelphia, P

A
 

19115 

P
S

 
51422 

12/05/2013 
N

guyen, H
ong A

n 
06/01 /1 984 

S
outh U

niversity 
3518 W

oodland D
r 

B
elden, M

S
 

38826 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:27:35P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 6 of 8 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:27:23 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

P
S

 
51423 

12/05/2013 
B

obo, H
erbert O

tis Jr 
10/11/1949 

A
uburn U

niversity M
ain 

C
am

pus 
2032 P

ine Island C
ircle 

M
iram

ar B
each, F

L 
32550 

P
s 

51424 
12/06/2013 

Jam
es, E

dw
in 

09/10/1986 
T

ouro C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

16961 A
lico M

ission W
ay 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33908 

P
S

 
51425 

12/06/2013 
N

guyen, N
goctuyen 

T
han 

08/16/1972 
C

reighton U
niversity 

10765 K
enw

orthy 
E

l P
aso, T

X
 

79934 

P
S

 
51426 

12/06/2013 
R

aquipo, Jennifer 
A

nn 
07/30/1988 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

807 S
ilver S

prings B
lvd 

O
cala, 

F
L 

34470 

P
S

 
51427 

12/06/2013 
M

anduca, A
rlyn 

08/25/1 986 
N

ova S
outheastern 

U
niversity 

15022 S
w

 69T
h S

t. 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33193 

P
S

 
51428 

12/10/2013 
D

ance, R
ichard 

N
athaniel 

06/26/1988 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1111 A

m
sterdam

 A
venue 

N
ew

 Y
ork, N

Y
 

10025 

P
5 

51429 
12/10/2013 

Johnston, C
arol R

hee 
11/25/1976 

S
t Louis C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 
4738 G

len H
eather D

r 
F

risco, T
X

 
75034 

P
5 

51430 
12/10/2013 

P
aram

o, S
ara 

V
anessa 

05/15/1980 
P

hiladelphia C
ollege 

O
f P

harm
acy A

nd S
ci 

2301 
S

 B
road S

treet 
P

hiladelphia, P
A

 
19148 

P
S

 
51431 

12/10/2013 
C

zech, C
arrie Lynn 

03/31/1974 
F

erris S
tate U

niversity 
128 E

 B
randon B

lvd 
B

randon, F
L 

33511 

P
S

 
51432 

12/10/2013 
S

heikh, M
oham

m
ed 

H
asib 

10/16/1983 
Jefferson S

chool O
f 

P
harm

acys 
205 N

w
 128 A

ve 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33182 

P
S

 
51433 

12/12/2013 
H

enry, V
elm

a E
llen 

04/20/1982 
U

niversity O
f K

entucky 
1607 S

aint Jam
es C

ourt 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32308 

P
5 

51434 
12/12/2013 

B
laire, M

ichael 
R

ichard 
08/15/1958 

S
t Johns C

ollege M
ain 

C
am

pus 
7631 

E
 Indian S

chool R
d 

S
cottsdale, A

Z
 

85251 

P
S

 
51435 

12/12/2013 
C

am
acho, F

elipe 
08/13/1981 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

9150 K
ings C

rossing 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33912 

P
S

 
51436 

12/12/2013 
N

orw
ood-W

illianis, 
C

arlette E
laine 

03/20/1965 
T

exas S
outhern 

U
niversity 

1350 S
outh H

ickory S
treet 

M
elbourne, 

F
L 

32901 

P
S

 
51437 

12/12/2013 
K

arjdinov, R
aisa 

08/19/1980 
S

t Johns C
ollege M

ain 
C

am
pus 

560 R
idgeland T

errace 
E

nglew
ood, N

J 
07631 

P
5 

51438 
12/13/2013 

S
im

on, T
ony 

C
herukara 

01/26/1985 
X

avier U
niversity 

2124 38T
h S

treet 
K

enner, LA
 

70065 

P
S

 
51439 

12/17/2013 
A

w
obusuyi, 

O
lufeyikem

i 
A

anuoluw
apo 

03/26/1985 
Lake E

rie C
oIl. O

f 
O

steo M
ed. S

ch. O
f 

P
harm

. 

407 W
V

ine S
treet 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34741 

P
S

 
51440 

12/17/2013 
Q

uirk, F
atm

eh 
06/12/1981 

F
oreign S

chools 
5416 T

ow
n 

N
 

C
ountry 

B
lvd. 

T
am

pa, F
L 33615 

P
S

 
51441 

12/17/2013 
C

arden, R
obert S

cott 
04/11/1974 

U
niversity O

f 
T

ennessee-K
noxville 

367 W
hispering Lake D

r 
S

anta R
osa B

each, 
F

L 

32459 

P
5 

51442 
12/17/2013 

S
m

ith, Jam
es 

N
icholas 

06/07/1983 
M

ercer U
niversity 

1035 R
ed B

ud R
d 

C
alhoun, G

A
 30701 

P
S

 
51443 

12/17/2013 
G

anesh, O
m

joy 
K

um
ar 

04/22/1 976 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
1329 N

w
 16 S

treet S
uite 

2170 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32608 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:27:35P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 7 of 8 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:01/22/2014 23:27:23 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
51444 

12/18/2013 
S

ales, M
aria Lovella 

B
rucal 

09/25/1974 
F

oreign S
chools 

4090 S
 T

am
iam

i T
rail 

V
enice, F

L 
34293 

P
S

 
51445 

12/19/2013 
B

rodersen, S
herry 

Littlepage 
12/27/1971 

T
exas T

ech U
niversity 

H
ealth S

ciences 
C

enter O
f P

harm
acy 

15710 ibisridge D
r 

Lithia, F
L 

33547 

P
S

 
51446 

12/19/2013 
H

udson, Lauren C
ole 

01/29/1983 
S

outh U
niversity 

3016W
. G

andy B
lvd. 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33611 

P
S

 
51447 

12/19/2013 
S

aed, A
reem

an 
11/26/1982 

Long Island U
niversity 

B
rooklyn C

am
pus 

9745 T
ouchton R

d U
nit 

3323 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32246 

P
S

 
51448 

12/19/2013 
R

ook, A
lan O

lsen 
10/09/1962 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

3739 25T
h A

venue N
orth 

S
aint P

etersburg, 
F

L 
33713 

P
S

 
51449 

12/19/2013 
W

eatherington, E
rika 

D
enise 

01/30/1 987 
F

lorida A
 &

 
M

 

U
niversity 

6916 B
low

ing R
 K

 Ln 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32222 

P
S

 
51450 

12/20/2013 
C

rass, M
elanie 

B
rooke 

12/18/1987 
E

ast T
ennessee S

tate 
U

niversity 
1011 B

loom
ingdale A

ve 
V

alrico, F
L 

33596 

P
S

 
51451 

12/30/2013 
W

aggoner, T
ori 

D
arlene 

02/20/1976 
D

rake U
niversity 

1003 H
w

y 65 N
 

C
arrollton, M

O
 64633 

P
S

 
51452 

12/30/2013 
A

bdanan, H
am

id 
R

eza 
05/19/1956 

U
niversity O

f A
rkansas 

F
or M

edical 
S

cien;U
niversity O

f 
M

issouri-K
ansas C

ity 

6020W
. P

arker R
d 

P
iano, T

X
 

75093 

p5 
51453 

12/30/2013 
C

ordova, M
ichael J 

04/26/1 973 
U

niversity O
f C

olorado 
H

ealth S
ciences C

 
7472 S

 T
ucson W

ay 
C

entennial, C
O

 
80112 

P
S

 
51454 

12/30/2013 
D

uncan, Jam
ie 

S
hiriene 

10/09/1983 
F

lorida A
 &

 M
 

U
niversity 

9126 S
abalridge G

rove P
1 

A
pt 203 

T
am

pa, F
L 33610 

P
S

 
51455 

12/30/2013 
H

ughes, S
henika 

G
ertrude 

03/27/1 988 
F

lorida A
 A

nd M
 

U
niversity 

2001 S
pirit Lake R

d 
W

inter H
aven, F

L 
33880 

P
S

 
51456 

12/30/2013 
K

ertm
an, R

obert John 
05/26/1949 

P
hiladelphia C

ollege 
O

f P
harm

acy A
nd S

ci 
235 B

ells Lake R
d 

T
urnersville, N

J 
08012 

P
S

 
51457 

12/30/2013 
K

onds, F
ady H

elal 
03/04/1984 

Long Island U
niversity 

C
entral O

ffice 
60-55 M

yltIe A
ve 

R
idgew

ood, N
Y

 
11385 

P
S

 
51458 

12/30/2013 
M

cdaniel, S
teven 

D
ale 

07/17/1953 
U

niversity O
f 

O
klahom

a 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

323 14-6320 

P
S

 
51459 

12/30/2013 
P

an, S
tephen 

G
ene-Lloyd 

05/20/1980 
D

uquesne U
niversity 

1328 O
rchid A

ve 
W

inter P
ark, F

L 
32789 

P
S

 
51460 

12/30/2013 
R

oberts, Jonathan 
08/02/1983 

M
assachusetts C

ollege 
O

f P
har &

 A
llied H

 
1835 F

lorida C
lub C

ir A
pt 

3204 
N

aples, F
L 

34112 

P
S

 
51461 

12/30/2013 
S

anders, S
teven 

W
inston 

11/30/1953 
U

niversity O
f C

olorado 
H

ealth S
ciences 

C
;P

urdue U
niversity 

M
ain C

am
pus 

1795 W
hitecap C

ir 
N

orth F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33903 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uolily A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:27:35P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2201 

: Pharm
acist 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
8 of 8 

T
otal R

ecords: 
147 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkgjpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:27:23 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

 
51462 

12/3012013 
S

m
ith, Jessica 

H
uffstetler 

03/21/1986 
M

ercer U
niversity 

6175 H
ickory F

lat H
w

y 
C

anton, G
A

 
30115 

P
S

 
51463 

12/31/2013 
V

elez-H
oy, S

onia Luz 
10/21/1965 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

1901 W
 S

crenen S
t 

Q
uitm

an, G
A

 31643 
P

5 
51464 

12/3112013 
M

orcos, C
aroline 

N
agy E

lias 
11/1 2/1 982 

F
oreign S

chools 
2208 U

s H
w

y 19 N
 

H
oliday, F

L 
34691 



Division ot 
Medical Quality Assurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 11:37:51PM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Board of 2201 : Pharmacist 

Eligible Between 11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 1 of2 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR iNTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:O1/22/2014 23:37:33 

2201 44065 Varieur, Melissa Ann 11/01/2013 

2201 44127 Tran,SuongQue 11/01/2013 
2201 44187 Deras, Ricardo Antonio 11/01/2013 
2201 43578 Matlock, Jessica Anne 11/04/2013 
2201 43992 Akpabio,IniPaul 11/04/2013 

2201 44190 Shatz, Michael David 11/04/2013 

2201 44229 Bhuiyan, Akm Alauddin 11/04/2013 
2201 34961 Velez Rosado, Alexandra 11/06/2013 
2201 42543 Blankinchip-Rodriguez, Cheryl Lynn 11/06/2013 
2201 44216 Minkovich, Irma 11/12/2013 

2201 44208 Mcgowens, Santa Iris 11/13/2013 

2201 44227 Ringel, MosheZ 11/13/2013 

2201 44246 Schutter, Susan Marie 11/13/2013 
2201 44248 Gust, Michael Alan 11/13/2013 

2201 44223 Campbell, Laurie Ann 11/15/2013 

2201 44251 Treadway, Sarah Angel 11/15/2013 
2201 33454 DeJesusTorres, Irian 11/19/2013 

2201 42808 Nihalani, Parag Doulat 11/20/2013 

2201 44239 Blyumin, Gabriella Eileen 11/20/2013 

2201 44257 Jenkins, Precious Miceala 11/20/2013 
2201 44068 Van Deventer, Laura Jane 11/21/2013 

2201 41157 Hoang,PeniVu 11/22/2013 

2201 44076 lrizarry-Hernandez, Wilmiris 11/22/2013 

2201 44264 Brittain,Jeffery Bryan 11/26/2013 

2201 42702 lonan, Elena 12/02/2013 

2201 44253 Zayas-Aiken, Carmen Yazmin 12/03/2013 
2201 44232 Murdasanu, Juliana 12/04/2013 
2201 44274 Olszewski, Vicki Reagan 12/04/2013 
2201 42748 Tenis, Vedia 12/05/2013 
2201 44238 Bohunicky, Brian Anthony 12/05/2013 
2201 44249 Hernandez, Marlen 12/05/2013 
2201 44270 Burt, Ashley Peavy 12/05/2013 

2201 27205 Thomas, Jeeva 12/06/2013 

2201 42951 KIar, Terence F 12/06/2013 
2201 44102 Coers, Pat Handley 12/06/2013 

2201 44225 Rathod, Deepa Ganpat 12/06/2013 
2201 44272 Kajee, Fatima 12/06/2013 

2201 42875 Patel, Poumil 12/10/2013 

2201 44119 Lee,Jonathan Christopher 12/10/2013 
2201 44153 Walters, Marta 12/10/2013 
2201 44261 Kincaid, Michele Rae 12/10/2013 

2201 44224 Onuorah, Afoma Marystella 12/11/2013 

2201 44231 Lassiter, Eric Blake 12/11/2013 

2201 44247 Olia, Sarah Shabbir 12/12/2013 

2201 44259 Henderson, James E 12/12/2013 



Division of 
Medical Qualily Assurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 11:37:51PM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 
Exam Eligibility Report For Board of 2201 : Pharmacist 

Eligible Between 11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 Sort Order: Eligibility Date 

Page 2 of 2 

Profession File Nbr Licensee Name Eligible Date Exam Modifiers 

Total Number of Eligible Applications: 77 

Florida Department of Health -- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- pkg_rpt_app.p_dxa5l9:O1/22/2014 23:37:33 

2201 44281 Rudyshyn, Natalie Mayor 12/12/2013 
2201 42866 lgbinoba Okojie, Osarhieme 12/13/2013 
2201 43276 Phipps, Lemuel Bryan 12/13/2013 
2201 44143 Yanni, Niveen 12/16/2013 
2201 44252 Ivezic, Sandra 12/16/2013 
2201 44269 Ebrahem, Christeen Farid 12/16/2013 
2201 44288 Dedania, Amita Pravin 12/16/2013 
2201 24784 Khanum, Shahida 12/17/2013 
2201 44040 Singh, Sandeep Kumar 12/17/2013 
2201 44211 Halim,SherifNabil 12/19/2013 
2201 44254 Cotto, Marlene 12/19/2013 
2201 44265 TayLor, Anya Chimere 12/19/2013 
2201 44289 Patel, Livia Tan May 12/19/2013 
2201 44292 Tirado, Carmen Laura 12/19/2013 
2201 44233 Matiak, Amy Lynn 12/20/2013 
2201 44266 'Donnell, Karen Lynn 12/20/2013 
2201 44297 Alameddine, Sarah 12/20/2013 

2201 44299 Jacob,Zachariah 12/20/2013 
2201 42734 Nashed, Nadine Adel 12/30/2013 
2201 44235 Leber, Michael Anthony 12/30/2013 
2201 44258 Li, Christine Chu 12/30/2013 
2201 44304 Attri, Lakshay 12/30/2013 
2201 44306 Correa, Stefan 12/30/2013 
2201 40784 Jimenez Rosarlo, Jacqueline 12/31/2013 
2201 44085 Gupta, Deepak 12/31/2013 
2201 44256 Yoon, Sooyoung 12/31/2013 
2201 44271 Ortiz, Jelitza Amaez 12/31/2013 
2201 44286 Kenneh,VafinM 12/31/2013 

2201 44309 Awadallah, Sandra Magdy Boshra 12/31/2013 
2201 44310 Dao, Khanh Manh Trung 12/31/2013 

2201 44311 Lakhchaura, Vipin Harish 12/31/2013 
2201 44312 UIizza, Emily Michelle 12/31/2013 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

JS
 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:39:51P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
S

ort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

P
age 

I of7 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

I 
32065 

11/04/2013 
P

alm
a, S

tephanie M
 

06/25/1 992 
15882 S

w
 63 T

err 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33193 

P
S

I 
32066 

11/04/2013 
T

elci, A
dem

 M
 

08/06/1990 
4460 H

odges B
lvd #1 824 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 
P

S
I 

32067 
11/04/2013 

S
edky, C

hristine 
A

ym
an K

am
at 

09/26/1 989 
5916 N

w
 54T

h C
ircle 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33067 

P
S

I 
32068 

11/04/2013 
S

hvetz, Julia 
08/1 5/1 980 

11875 S
w

 16T
h 

S
t 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33025 

P
S

I 
32069 

11/04/2013 
S

tacey, M
cclellan 

Lucille 
01/10/1 992 

650 D
ekalb S

t U
nit 1209 

A
uburn, A

L 
36830 

P
S

I 
32070 

11/04/2013 
D

ipnarine, 
C

hristopher 
8433 S

outhside B
lvd A

pt 
1401 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32256 

P
S

I 
32071 

11/04/2013 
C

oy, Larry S
am

uel 
03/23/1 990 

6034 D
u-C

lay R
d 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32244 

P
S

I 
32072 

11/04/2013 
C

hurch, M
ichael Joel 

12/05/1 989 
8737 B

ardm
oor P

lace 
S

em
inole, F

L 33777 
P

S
I 

32073 
11/04/2013 

B
row

n, N
athan 

R
ichard 

11/26/1991 
308 A

ries D
rive 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32073 

P
S

I 
32074 

11/04/2013 
H

ocbstetler, A
lexis 

E
lizabeth 

04/28/1991 
601 S

im
m

ons A
ve 

S
arasota, F

L 34232 

P
S

I 
32075 

11/05/2013 
G

haly, E
rin M

agdy 
M

oris 
12/25/1 986 

1715 S
arong 

P
lace 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32792 

P
S

I 
32076 

11/05/2013 
K

aldas, M
ichael S

 
06/15/1979 

2700 N
 A

tlantic A
ve U

nit 
#416 

D
aytona B

each, F
L 

32118 
P

S
I 

32077 
11/05/2013 

A
ssaf, C

laudia 
07/30/1 982 

8777 C
ollins A

ve A
pt #601 

S
urfside, F

L 
33154 

P
S

I 
32078 

11/06/2013 
K

apadia, P
ayal M

 
11/18/1 990 

9468 S
liverthorn R

d 
Largo, F

L 
33777 

P
S

I 
32079 

11/06/2013 
Lynch, B

rian D
avid 

05/11/1991 
6751 N

w
21 T

errace 
F

ort Lauderdale, F
L 

33309 
P

S
I 

32080 
11/06/2013 

Jones, M
ark A

nthony 
10/25/1988 

21428 M
ontclare B

lvd 
S

trongsville, O
H

 
44149 

P
S

I 
32081 

11/06/2013 
N

evil, Janna 
M

arie 
10/15/1 992 

106 S
onata C

ircle 
P

ooler, G
A

 
31322 

P
S

I 
32082 

11/06/2013 
O

w
usu K

orkor, 
E

bunoluw
a O

luvom
i 

09/04/1 991 
1415 S

outh M
artin Luther 

K
ing B

lvd 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32307 

P
S

I 
32083 

11/06/2013 
Johnson, D

eontae 
Jabora 

01/28/1990 
l4l5S

M
lkJrB

lvd 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32307 

P
S

I 
32084 

11/06/2013 
Jordan, M

elony 
D

enise 
05/01/1993 

1415S
. 

M
artin Luther 

K
ing Jr. B

lvd 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32307 

P
S

I 
32085 

11/06/2013 
S

teinberg, A
dam

 
Lee 

10/21/1981 
400 N

W
87 Ln A

pt 204 
P

lantation, F
L 33324 

P
S

I 
32086 

11/06/2013 
R

ose, T
iffany M

 
01/09/1 991 

8787 S
outhside B

lvd 
#1418 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32256 

P
S

I 
32087 

11/06/2013 
A

cheson, G
erald 

P
hilip 

03/28/1 962 
223-233 N

orth S
t. 

C
alais, M

E
 

04619 

P
S

I 
32088 

11/08/2013 
B

utler, Jaria N
icole 

09/03/1 985 
528 R

iverw
ood D

r 
C

restview
, F

L 32536 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 23:39:43 
O

N
D

 



C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2202 
: Pharm

acist Intern 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:39:51P
M

 

R
ank 

LicN
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 2 of 7 

PL
 Location 

P
L A

ddress 

P
S

I 
32089 

11/08/2013 
G

rant, Jerom
e 

08/24/1989 
I 

1000 P
atriot Ln A

pt 

2051 
H

am
ilI R

oad 
H

ixson, T
N

 
37343 

P
S

I 
32090 

11/08/2013 
H

anley, R
honda K

ay 
01/04/1968 

1878 
E

. 9M
iIe R

d A
pt 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32514 

P
S

I 
32091 

11/13/2013 
M

athew
s, M

egan 
N

icole 
04/14/1991 

#902 

53 E
xchange S

treet 
R

ichm
ond H

ill, G
A

 
31324 

P
S

I 
32092 

11/13/2013 
K

eeney, Jennifer R
ae 

06/17/1984 
62-2984 S

t 
Q

ueens, N
Y

 
11379 

P
S

I 
32093 

11/13/2013 
K

hairalla, A
hm

ad 
S

aadM
ouham

ed 
05/27/1987 

1042 S
anford A

venue A
pt 

S
aint Louis, M

O
 

63139 
P

S
I 

32094 
11/13/2013 

P
avlov, S

tephanie 
T

ucker 
05/06/1988 

1 
S

w
 

1516 
S

. G
reenleaf C

ourt 
W

inter S
prings, F

L 
32708 

P
S

I 
32095 

11/13/2013 
P

oling, K
elsey 

A
lexandra 

07/11/1991 

708 S
w

 4T
h A

venue 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32601 
P

S
I 

32096 
11/13/2013 

Le, T
uyet M

inh N
goc 

01/03/1993 
227 S

w
 8T

h S
t. 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33130 
P

S
I 

32097 
11/13/2013 

P
iedra, K

atrina 
M

ichelle 
02/24/1991 

3500 S
w

 19T
h A

ve. A
pt. 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32607 

P
S

I 
32098 

11/13/2013 
K

elly, Jonathan R
oss 

04/22/1992 
123 

5432 M
oon V

alley D
r. 

Lakeland, F
L 

33812 
P

S
I 

32099 
11/13/2013 

D
aniel G

eorge, 
S

tephen 
03/22/1 984 

500 G
rafton S

treet 
W

orcester, M
A

 
01604 

P
S

I 
32100 

11/13/2013 
A

ndonov, M
etodija 

01/30/1 988 
—

 

5055 N
orth 9T

h A
venue 

—
 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32504 

P
S

I 
32101 

11/13/2013 
A

dam
s, M

agen N
icole 

08/17/1993 
457 C

ypress S
treet 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, 

F
L 

P
S

I 
32102 

11/13/2013 
A

bdelnour, T
aw

feles 
N

essem
 

07/23/1 986 

1875 F
ireside D

r. 

32714 

C
incinnati, O

H
 

45255 
P

S
I 

32103 
11/13/2013 

C
ornelius, Jennifer 

M
arie 

06/27/1 990 

2814 K
ipps C

olony D
r 

G
ulfport, F

L 
33707 

P
S

I 
32104 

11/15/2013 
S

hatz, K
atelyn 

E
lizabeth 

10/1 9/1 990 

950 B
ackstage Lane 

O
rlando, 

F
L 32836 

P
S

I 
32105 

11/15/2013 
R

obinson, C
orey 

D
ouglas 

06/15/1989 

201 
N

w
 78 T

errace A
pt 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
P

S
I 

32106 
11/15/2013 

S
inclair R

eid, C
orretta 

C
ecelia 

01/16/1969 
201 

2566W
 T

ennessee S
t A

pt 

33024 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32304 

P
S

I 
32107 

11/18/2013 
W

illiam
s, K

risten 
P

atrice 
01/24/1992 

8322-C
 

1415 S
. M

artin Luther 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32307 
P

S
I 

32108 
11/18/2013 

S
hahid, T

alya A
lysia 

02/02/1987 
K

ing Jr B
lvd 

15862 N
w

 10T
h S

t 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

P
S

I 
32109 

11/20/2013 
A

cam
pado, K

ayla 
Leigh A

ngot 
04/08/1993 

3021 S
W

. 92 C
t 

33028 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33165 

P
S

I 

P
S

I 

32110 

32111 

11/20/2013 

11/20/2013 

G
onzalez, M

ary-A
nn 

D
elgado, C

laudia 

07/05/1 992 

01/03/1988 
I 

2555 E
ast 4T

h A
ve A

pto 7 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33013 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dX

l5l 5:01/22/2014 23:39:43 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:39:51P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
3 of7 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
'pt_lic.p_dxl5l5:01/22/2014 23:39:43 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
S

I 
32112 

11/20/2013 
C

hoi, Y
oung 

H
 

09/04/1989 
2880 S

w
 75T

h W
ay #2208 

D
avie, F

L 33314 

P
S

I 
32113 

11/20/2013 
G

om
ez, Julian A

 
11/09/1990 

2600 S
. U

niversity D
r 

#220' 
D

avie, F
L 33328 

P
S

I 
32114 

11/20/2013 
C

hristie, D
iana 

01/11/1988 
3301 

C
ollege A

ve 
F

ort Lauderdale, F
L 

33314 

P
S

I 
32115 

11/2012013 
D

erose, Jenny Lee 
12/19/1989 

6380 N
w

 38T
h T

errace 
V

irginia G
ardens, 

F
L 

33166 

P
S

I 
32116 

11/20/2013 
A

li, M
d H

asan 
01/07/1982 

25580 S
w

 137 A
ve A

pt 
#203 

H
om

estead, 
F

L 
33032 

P
S

I 
32117 

11/20/2013 
A

l-G
ham

di, A
hlam

 A
li 

05/19/1985 
9082 C

leary B
lvd 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33324 

P
S

I 
32118 

11/20/2013 
D

iaz, A
na G

abriela 
02/02/1 991 

1520 S
w

 16 S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33145 

P
S

I 
32119 

11/20/2013 
B

artholom
ew

, B
rent 

Jam
es 

03/14/1989 
2881 

S
w

 73R
d W

ay A
pt 

2109 
D

avie, F
L 

33314 

P
S

I 
32120 

11/20/2013 
C

uslovic, Z
ejna 

12/13/1986 
1401 

S
e 15T

h S
t A

pt 217 
F

ort Lauderdale, 
F

L 
33316 

P
S

I 
32121 

11/20/2013 
H

euett, C
arl Isaac 

02/21/1975 
2937 U

topia D
r 

M
iram

ar, F
L 33023 

P
S

I 
32122 

11/20/2013 
H

errandez, D
iana 

03/06/1989 
2640 S

outh U
niversity 

D
rive 

D
avie, 

F
L 33328 

P
S

I 
32123 

11/20/2013 
F

alcon N
ieves, 

D
ianexy 

09/08/1 984 
449 A

venida N
oel E

stroda 
Isabela, P

R
 

00662 

P
S

I 
32124 

11/20/2013 
H

arrison, T
iffany 

A
dair 

08/28/1990 
571 N

w
 72N

d T
errace 

P
lantation, F

L 33317 

P
S

I 
32125 

11/20/2013 
B

row
n, E

lisa A
nn 

09/22/1990 
12301 

B
lue Jay R

d 
N

ew
ark, O

H
 

43056 

P
S

I 
32126 

11/20/2013 
A

oun, N
ader M

 
02/28/1 986 

4491 W
oodglen A

pt B
 

K
ent, O

H
 

44240 

P
S

I 
32127 

11/20/2013 
D

ahham
, E

lias 
G

eorge 
07/13/1975 

2477 A
quarius R

d 
O

range P
ark, F

L 
32073 

P
S

I 
32128 

11/20/2013 
H

araka, M
ohab 

16201 
S

 R
 50 E

 S
uite 301 

C
lerm

ont, F
L 

34711 

P
S

I 
32129 

11/25/2013 
R

odriguez Y
era, 

P
avel 

04/10/1975 
B

ox 290636 
D

avie, F
L 

33329 

P
S

I 
32130 

11/25/2013 
S

iddiqui, S
anna 

09/04/1985 
12411 

N
w

 15T
h 

P
1 #307 

S
unrise, F

L 
33323 

P
S

I 
32131 

11/25/2013 
S

andoval, W
alter 

Jorge 
03/25/1 988 

9039 N
w

 40T
h P

lace 
S

unrise, F
L 

33351 

P
S

I 
32132 

11/25/2013 
Z

ekery-S
aad, S

ara 
A

tef 
11/13/1993 

40A
 Leon S

treet 
B

oston, M
A

 
02115 

P
S

I 
32133 

11/25/2013 
M

iddlebrook, 
G

iovanna 
01/26/1990 

10420 N
. M

ckinley D
rive 

A
pt 8313 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33612 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:39:51P
M

 

C
 O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 4 of 7 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:39:43 

O
N

D
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 

P
S

I 
32134 

11/2712013 
N

guyen, M
y-O

anh T
hi 

01/20/1990 
401 

S
w

 178 W
ay 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

F
L 

33029 

P
S

I 
32135 

11/27/2013 
N

guyen, P
huc M

inh 
09/19/1988 

6101 
P

alm
 T

race 
Landings D

r A
pt 103 

D
avie, F

L 
33314 

P
S

I 
32136 

11/27/2013 
P

hyu, Jessica 
08/27/1992 

5532 A
lbin D

rive 
G

reenacres, F
L 

33463 

P
S

I 
32137 

11/27/2013 
M

akar, P
eter H

elm
y 

A
ziz 

08/03/1992 
2431 

S
w

 82N
d A

ve 1-303 
D

avie, F
L 

33324 

P
S

I 
32138 

11/27/2013 
Jim

m
y, Jiny E

lizabeth 
10/27/1991 

3625 C
ollege A

venue 
R

olling H
ills 

F
ort Lauderdale, T

X
 

33314 

P
S

I 
32139 

11/27/2013 
N

ichols, B
randi D

aw
n 

06/06/1992 
2791 

S
w

 71S
t T

errace A
pt 

901 
D

avie, 
F

L 33314 

P
S

I 
32140 

11/27/2013 
O

rtega, M
onica 

F
ernanda 

05/14/1 991 
7431 

N
 F

ederal H
w

y 
B

oca 
R

aton, F
L 

33487 

P
S

I 
32141 

11/27/2013 
M

arrero, A
lejandro 

02/03/1989 
1116 N

w
 136T

h A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33182 

P
S

I 
32142 

11/27/2013 
Lall, B

hagm
atie 

12/02/1 988 
2 S

outh F
ederal H

w
y 

D
eerfield B

each, 
F

L 
33441 

P
S

I 
32143 

11/27/2013 
P

asco, Y
uslin M

artha 
10/04/1986 

5910 N
w

 5T
h S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33126 

P
S

I 
32144 

11/27/2013 
M

orejon, M
aylin 

10/02/1986 
421 R

edding 
R

d A
pt #69 

Lexington, K
Y

 40517 

P
S

I 
32145 

11/27/2013 
K

issee B
ynum

, 
A

nthony G
irard 

08/12/1986 
261 B

usiness P
ark B

lvd 
A

pt 228 
C

olum
bia, S

C
 

29203 

P
S

I 
32146 

11/27/2013 
K

ozm
an, S

am
irA

A
 

A
ngelo 

01/19/1979 
545 S

. F
orte Lauderdale 

B
each B

lvd 
F

ort Lauderdale, 
F

L 
33316 

P
S

I 
32147 

11/27/2013 
K

asten, K
ory T

hom
as 

07/09/1989 
17047 M

ock 
R

d 
B

erlin C
enter, O

H
 

44401 

P
S

I 
32148 

11/27/2013 
C

vetkovski, Z
haklina 

V
otslav 

08/30/1 982 
2355 N

e 26T
h S

t 
F

ort Lauderdale, 
F

L 
33308 

P
S

I 
32149 

11/27/2013 
A

bdelrehim
, A

m
any 

B
ekhit 

12/07/1976 
8826 B

 G
rand P

alm
s C

ir 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34741 

P
S

I 
32150 

11/27/2013 
H

em
m

ert, R
yan D

avid 
08/25/1989 

205 
E

 P
alm

er A
ve 

B
ellefontaine, O

H
 

43311 

P
S

I 
32151 

11/27/2013 
D

ickey, Jason S
hane 

03/14/1988 
249 P

arkw
ay S

treet 
W

inchester, V
A

 
22601 

P
S

I 
32152 

11/27/2013 
G

asm
en, M

elissa 
R

ochelle 
07/16/1 985 

8042 H
orse F

erry R
oad 

O
rlando, F

L 
32835 

P
S

I 
32153 

11/27/2013 
G

erges, H
aidy S

afw
at 

F
aw

zy 
07/15/1982 

1704 D
estiny B

lvd A
pt 

#101 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34741 

P
S

I 
32154 

11/27/2013 
Leyva, N

atalia 
01/04/1983 

9020 O
ld C

utler R
d 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33156 

P
S

I 
32155 

11/27/2013 
Le, Jennifer V

u 
06/17/1987 

314 E
nnis Lane 

Jupiter, F
L 33458 

P
S

I 
32156 

11/27/2013 
M

olchanov, V
era 

08/04/1 982 
1409 B

arlow
 C

ourt 
P

alm
 B

each G
ardens, F

L 
33410 



F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
4 23:39:43 

O
N

O
 

D
ivision 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:39:51P
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 5 of 7 

PL
 Location 

PSI 
32157 

12/02/2013 
O

sterfeld, Lindsey 
A

nn 
05/05/1991 

2337 S
w

 A
rcher R

oad A
pt 

1086 
G

ainesville, 

F
L 

33025 
PSI 

32158 
12/02/2013 

P
enha, JaneII C

 
07/26/1 984 

1705 S
w

 99 T
errace 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

FL
 

PSI 
32159 

12/02/2013 
R

obinson, T
onisha 

S
im

one 
03/02/1980 

13280 N
W

 18T
h 

33028 F
L 

33314 
PSI 

32160 
12/05/2013 

L
im

, C
hel 

H
o 

02/19/1 978 
2751 

S
w

 71 St T
errace A

pt 
807 

FL
 33328 

PSI 
32161 

12/05/2013 
N

guyen, T
huy D

uong 
N

ang 
02/24/1989 

2810 S
w

 87 A
ve A

pt 

33328 
PSI 

32162 
12/05/2013 

Parniar, V
iralsinh R

 
09/30/1 988 

2640 S
outh U

niversity D
r 

A
pt 216 

D
avie, 

PSI 
32163 

12/05/2013 
Flores, Sergio 
A

ntonio 
10/02/1989 

14212 SW
 30T

h Street 
M

iam
i, FL

 

C
linton, SC

 
29325 

PSI 
32164 

12/05/2013 
H

urieycutt, E
m

ily 
D

anielle 
02/23/1 991 

411 M
usgrove S

treet A
pt 

202 
FL

 33569 
PSI 

32165 
12/05/2013 

E
rouk, Islam

 Farid 
N

agah E
lsayed 

12/1 2/1 979 
10623 G

ibsonton D
rive 

R
iverview

, 

Fort L
auderdale, FL

 
PSI 

32166 
12/05/2013 

H
om

er, A
ntonie 

W
illiam

 
08/22/1989 

1200 
W

ay 
33311 

N
Y

 
14221 

PSI 
32167 

12/05/2013 
R

yan, A
m

anda L
eigh 

07/13/1991 
97 Prom

enade L
ane 

W
illiam

sville, 

K
Y

 40509 
PSI 

32168 
12/05/2013 

Prew
itt, T

ravis Seth 
02/13/1987 

U
niversity O

f K
entucky 

3101 R
ichm

ond R
oad 

L
exington, 

H
aven, FL

 
32444 

PSI 
32169 

12/05/2013 
Jernigan, Johnathan 
Patrick 

12/18/1992 
2310 

H
w

y 

G
ainesville, FL

 
32610 

PSI 
32170 

12/05/2013 
Patel, U

rvi D
 

03/11/1992 
1225 C

enter D
rive 

G
ainesville, 

FL
 

32610 
PSI 

32171 
12/05/2013 

Pai, Preetika N
iranjan 

12/30/1989 
1225 C

enter D
rive 

N
D

 
58790 

PSI 
32172 

12/05/2013 
K

err, A
m

anda Jo 
03/09/1 990 

4602 18T
h A

ve. 
N

 
V

elva, 

N
Y

 
11385 

PSI 
32173 

12/06/2013 
B

ibaw
i, G

ergis M
agdi 

N
assif 

05/07/1980 
566 O

nderdonk A
ve 

R
idgew

ood, B
each, FL

 
PSI 

32174 
12/06/2013 

T
okatlian, Sose R

ita 
10/07/1984 

706 G
ardens D

rive 
Pom

pano 
33069 
M

iam
i, FL

 
33130 

PSI 
32175 

12/06/2013 
R

am
irez, M

elissa A
 

10/24/1983 
92 Sw

 3R
d Street A

pt 
2708 

FL
 34243 

PSI 
32176 

12/09/2013 
T

hrall, Jennifer L
ynn 

09/20/1 980 
7050 Fairw

ay B
end L

n 

#265 
Sarasota, 

FL
 

32303 
PSI 

32177 
12/09/2013 

R
ayford, A

ntonio 
D

em
trius 

06/25/1 988 
850 C

apital W
alk D

rive 
A

pt 7102 
T

allahassee, 

G
ainesville, FL

 
32608 

PSI 
32178 

12/10/2013 
K

im
, Jiyeon 

06/07/1 992 
2515 Sw

 35T
h Place 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:39:51P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 6 of 7 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

P
S

I 
32179 

12/10/2013 
K

im
, Jisun 

06/07/1 992 
2515 S

w
 35T

h P
lace A

pt 
105 

G
ainesville, F

L 

M
N

 
55117 

P
S

I 
32180 

12/10/2013 
M

oham
ed, M

aison 
A

bdalla 
08/16/1981 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f M
edical 

S
ciences A

nd T
echnology, 

K
hartum

, S
udan 

2055 B
radley S

t A
pt 206 

M
aplew

ood, F
L 32536 

P
S

I 
32181 

12/10/2013 
B

lack, D
anielle 

C
andice 

07/28/1981 
136 S

hady Lane 

B
lvd 

C
restview

, 

C
restview

, F
L 32536 

P
S

I 
32182 

12/10/2013 
Johnson, Jasm

ine 
A

lexandria 
11/14/1989 

800 S
pring C

reek 
A

pt 
#5201 

R
d. 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32304 

P
S

I 
32183 

12/10/2013 
A

lexis, M
ark P

hil 
04/13/1987 

2421 Jackson 
U

nit 334A
 

P
S

I 
32184 

12/12/2013 
H

afling, Jennifer 
M

arie 
12/10/1988 

U
niversity O

f G
eorgia 

1020 H
igh T

ide C
ourt 

Loganville, G
A

 

G
A

 
30341 

P
S

I 
32185 

12/12/2013 
F

ulks, K
atie A

nne 
07/09/1991 

M
ercer U

niversity 
3001 M

ercer U
niversity D

r 
A

pt 227B
 

A
tlanta, N

Y
 

14904 
P

S
I 

32186 
12/12/2013 

G
raham

, Julie M
arie 

01/01/1988 
130 S

outh M
ain S

treet 
E

lm
ira, F

L 
33186 

P
S

I 
32187 

12/12/2013 
E

spinosa V
alero, 

Y
usim

i 
04/01/1975 

F
oreign S

chools 
ljniversidad C

entral 
M

artha A
breu D

e Las 
V

illas. 

12650 S
w

 88T
h S

t 
M

iam
i, 

P
S

I 
32188 

12/12/2013 
C

oole, A
shley M

arina 
01/18/1989 

28031 A
nnabelle Lane 

D
aphne, A

L 

F
L 

33172 
P

S
I 

32189 
12/12/2013 

C
ueto G

arcia, A
ndys 

12/11/1988 
520 N

w
 114T

h A
ve A

pt 
204 

M
iam

i, 

F
L 

33463 
P

S
I 

32190 
12/12/2013 

E
lia, V

incent E
 

07/05/1 990 
4736 G

ladiator C
ircle 

G
reenacres, 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33144 
P

S
I 

32191 
12/12/2013 

G
arcia, A

lberlui 
09/29/1984 

640 F
lagam

i B
lvd 

C
ity, F

L 
33328 

P
S

I 
32192 

12/12/2013 
G

ross, 
S

ofia M
 

09/29/1 984 
9830 S

w
 59 

B
ellefontaine, O

H
 

43311 
P

S
I 

32193 
12/12/2013 

S
tahler, R

obert E
w

ing 
04/22/1990 

304 A
shbrook D

r. 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

P
S

I 
32194 

12/13/2013 
K

han, S
adia H

um
ayra 

01/07/1991 
3455S

w
 A

rcher R
d. 

F
L 

32773 
P

S
I 

32195 
12/13/2013 

Lee, E
ric Joseph 

04/19/1985 
2230 W

indsor Lakes 
C

ircle 
S

anford, 

F
L 

32955 
P

S
I 

32196 
12/13/2013 

P
ham

, Jason Q
 

10/17/1982 
6450 U

s H
w

y 
1 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32307 

P
S

I 
32197 

12/16/2013 
S

heppard, D
e'A

ndre 
K

ahn 
01/28/1993 

1415 S
. 

M
Ik Jr. B

lvd 

P
S

I 
32198 

12/16/2013 
S

iciliano, N
icole Lynn 

04/07/1988 
3862 H

unters Isle D
r 

O
rlando, 

F
L 

33020 
, P

S
I 

32199 
12/16/2013 

S
terling, Justin E

van 
01/25/1991 

616 E
dw

in 

F
L 

33328 
P

S
I 

32200 
12/16/2013 

T
ien, D

avid H
uu 

02/1 9/1 990 
2600 S

. U
niversity D

r 
220 

M
A

 
01907 

51 
32201 

12/16/2013 
S

t John, A
olani K

aim
i 

02/28/1985 
M

assachusetts C
ollege 

O
f P

har &
 A

llied H
 

509 E
astern A

ve 
Lynn, 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
4 23:39:43 

O
N

D
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:39:51P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2202 

: Pharm
acist Intern 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal License D

ate 

Page 7 of 7 

T
otal R

ecords: 
150 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 23:39:43 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
S

I 
32202 

12/16/2013 
P

ita, A
rlene 

05/28/1 977 
F

oreign S
chools 

U
niversity M

arta A
breu 

Las V
illas 

17441 S
w

 29 C
t 

M
iram

ar, 
F

L 33029 

P
S

I 
32203 

12/17/2013 
A

hm
ed, S

elm
a 

S
alahaldeen 

D
falla 

01/01/1981 
4503 T

ree H
ouse Ln A

pt 
8A

 
T

am
arac, F

L 
33319 

P
S

I 
32204 

12/17/2013 
Jiang, T

ing 
12/22/1989 

9298 S
w

 167T
h T

er 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33157 

P
S

I 
32205 

12/18/2013 
S

henegelegne, 
C

herinet A
m

baye 
04/29/1959 

T
am

pa G
eneral H

ospital 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33606 

P
S

I 
32206 

12/19/2013 
M

otley, D
ean A

lan 
02/12/1991 

5501 W
 S

am
ple R

d 
C

oconut C
reek, F

L 
33073 

P
S

I 
32207 

12/19/2013 
P

ena G
utierrez, Irene 

06/16/1984 
8256W

 6T
h S

t 
F

lorida C
ity, F

L 
33034 

P
S

I 
32208 

12/19/2013 
R

oehm
, D

aniella 
C

ecilia 
03/18/1988 

3603 D
ata D

r. A
pt. #301 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33613 

P
S

I 
32209 

12/19/2013 
V

an D
en B

erg, P
hyllis 

07/25/1962 
18271 

C
oral Isles D

rive 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33498 

P
S

I 
32210 

12/20/2013 
B

izzak, John A
nton Jr 

09/23/1989 
D

youville C
ollege 

63 H
edley P

lace 
B

uffalo, N
Y

 
14208 

P
S

I 
32211 

12/20/2013 
G

orgy, E
m

an M
ilad 

A
badeer 

10/31/1956 
O

ther 
A

ssiut U
niversity O

f 
P

harm
acy 

172 C
 S

pringw
ood C

ircle 
Longw

ood, F
L 

32750 

P
S

I 
32212 

12/20/2013 
A

lraw
i, M

ahm
ood 

S
aieb 

01/15/1991 
3113 C

hapelgate W
ay A

pt 
B

 

W
est Lafayette, IN

 
47906 

P
S

I 
32213 

12/20/2013 
H

orlacher, R
andall 

Jeffrey 
06/17/1987 

1575 N
iagara F

alls B
lvd 

A
m

herst, N
Y

 
14228 

P
S

I 
32214 

12/23/2013 
C

andia, R
odolfo R

ene 
08/03/1977 

O
ther 

U
niversidad E

vangelica 
B

oliviana 
4701 H

aines R
d 

N
 

S
t P

etersburg, F
L 

33714 



D
ivision ot 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
4
 
1
1
:
4
1
:
3
7
P
M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 : R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
1 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

51073 
11/01/2013 

Legoute, R
icky 

12/26/1994 
T

echnical E
ducation 

C
enter O

f O
sceola 

1048 K
enm

ore S
t N

w
 

P
alm

 B
ay, F

L 32907 

R
P

T
 

51074 
11/01/2013 

M
atos, K

aterin 
01/11/1992 

2511 
S

w
ann A

ve S
uite 

102 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33609 

R
P

T
 

51075 
11/01/2013 

S
antos, O

m
ar 

08/17/1982 
O

ther 
U

.S
 A

rm
y A

m
edd C

/S
 

2700 S
andm

ine R
d 112 

C
apri D

r 

D
avenport, F

L 
33897 

R
P

T
 

51076 
11/04/2013 

O
rozco, W

il 
09/05/1 989 

P
rim

e P
harm

acy 
S

ervices, L.L.C
. 

5621 24T
h S

t W
est 

B
radenton, F

L 
34207 

R
P

T
 

51077 
11/04/2013 

M
ilton, W

aellzty 
H

annah 
12/12/1989 

7030 Jog R
oad 

Lake W
orth, F

L 33467 

R
P

T
 

51078 
11/04/2013 

Z
eigler, A

ndrew
 

T
hom

as 
04/07/1 994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
4086 S

eadragon B
luff 

S
pring H

ill, F
L 

34609 

R
P

T
 

51079 
11/04/2013 

B
issessar, Joanne 

A
m

rit 
10/02/1990 

W
inn D

ixie 
704 V

eronica C
ircle 

O
coee, 

F
L 

34761 

R
P

T
 

. 

51080 
11/04/2013 

S
m

ith, K
atrina 

M
ichelle 

09/09/1979 
W

al-M
art 

900 P
arksouth C

ourt S
uite 

100 
O

rlando, F
L 32837 

R
P

T
 

51081 
11/04/2013 

H
elm

s, G
eorge 

M
ichael 

09/11/1987 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1721 C
edarw

ood D
rive 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32935 

R
P

T
 

51082 
11/04/2013 

H
ernandez, B

ianca 
P

alom
a 

10/10/1993 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

10418 F
alcon P

arc B
lvd. 

A
pt.205 

O
rlando, F

L 32832 

R
P

T
 

51083 
11/04/2013 

H
icks, Julie A

nn 
08/04/1977 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2690 D
rew

 S
t A

pt 401 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33759 

R
P

T
 

51084 
11/04/2013 

B
encon, D

evenn John 
10/27/1994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
112 Lago V

ista B
lvd. 

C
asselberry, F

L 
32707 

R
P

T
 

51085 
11/04/2013 

S
parkm

an, R
ene 

03/25/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2271 50T

h C
ircle E

ast 
P

alm
etto, F

L 
34221 

R
P

T
 

51086 
11/04/2013 

G
rim

, K
aytlyn M

ichele 
06/03/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

4280 S
outhside 

B
oulevard 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32216 

R
P

T
 

51087 
11/04/2013 

M
endez, A

ndres 
H

ugo 
04/22/1993 

3580 N
 F

ederal H
w

y 
Lighthouse P

oint, F
L 

33064 

R
P

T
 

51088 
11/04/2013 

M
am

an, E
rika M

iriam
 

01/26/1995 
1109 E

ast H
allandale B

ch 
B

lvd 
H

allandale, F
L 

33009 

R
P

T
 

51089 
11/04/2013 

G
arlinghouse, D

iane 
E

llie M
arie 

12/08/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
141S

t 15137 N
e 141S

t S
t 

F
ort M

ccoy, F
L 

32134 

R
P

T
 

51090 
11/04/2013 

P
etrik, Landon Lee 

01/18/1992 
13733 

N
 U

s H
w

y 441 
Lady Lake, F

L 
32159 

R
P

T
 

51091 
11/04/2013 

B
axter, Z

achary 
10/29/1990 

W
algreens 

1707 P
ickens C

ircle 
B

aker, F
L 

32531 

R
P

T
 

51092 
11/04/2013 

R
eyes H

ernanadez, 
M

elayne 
08/02/1 987 

O
ther 

P
ass A

ssured 
220 H

enthorne D
rive A

pt 
C

-7 

P
alm

 S
prings, F

L 
33461 

R
P

T
 

51093 
11/04/2013 

C
ollazo, G

ianna 
C

hristine 
10/2411992 

P
ublixS

uperM
arket, 

Inc. 
3626 IO

ID
 Jefferson 

C
om

m
ons D

r 
T

am
pa, F

L 33613 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
S

ort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

P
age 2 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51094 
11/04/2013 

D
unim

er, F
rederick 

John V
 

07/23/1 992 
O

ther 
2419 

1020 P
eachtree D

r 
Lake P

lacid, F
L 

33852 

R
P

T
 

51095 
11/04/2013 

H
arney, K

aylee M
arie 

04/22/1989 
W

al-M
art 

11012 N
orth W

illiam
s 

S
treet 

D
unnellon, F

L 
34432 

R
P

T
 

51096 
11/04/2013 

A
tkinson, S

haron 
A

vonelle 
01/22/1 970 

W
al-M

art 
1450 Johns 

Lake R
oad 

C
lerm

ont, F
L 34711 

R
P

T
 

51097 
11/04/2013 

D
oniago, E

llen 
E

lizabeth 
08/12/1952 

T
arget P

harm
acy 

1771 D
unlaw

ton A
ve 

P
ort O

range, F
L 

32119 

R
P

T
 

51098 
11/04/2013 

D
el R

io, C
hristopher 

09/02/1989 
W

al-M
art 

2906 C
restw

ood T
errace 

M
argate, F

L 
33063 

R
P

T
 

51099 
11/05/2013 

A
rias, Lea E

lizabeth 
06/30/1987 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
7806 A

niseed C
ourt 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32244 

R
P

T
 

51100 
11/05/2013 

E
ar, Jaclyn M

arie 
07/05/1994 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1439S
. Ladera T

err 
Inverness, 

F
L 

34452 
R

P
T

 
51101 

11/05/2013 
D

onahue, B
rittany 

A
nn 

03/28/1990 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

2528 Lancien C
t 

O
rlando, F

L 
32826 

R
P

T
 

51102 
11/05/2013 

C
hapm

an, C
helsea 

Julia 
01/28/1993 

W
algreens 

3805 S
 N

ova 
P

ort O
range, F

L 
32129 

R
P

T
 

51103 
11/05/2013 

B
atista, B

renda 
11/01/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6226S
w

 165 
P

1 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33193 

R
P

T
 

51104 
11/05/2013 

D
allas, C

herita Lavina 
07/07/1987 

W
al-M

art 
6767 103R

d S
treet 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32210 
R

P
T

 
51105 

11/05/2013 
H

ardy, D
em

eka 
A

ngela 
03/29/1988 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
Jacksonville 

2209W
44T

h S
t 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32209 

R
P

T
 

51106 
11/05/2013 

D
ort, Joel 

10/05/1978 
1448 B

arton R
d A

pt 
1 

Lake W
orth, F

L 
33460 

R
P

T
 

51107 
11/05/2013 

A
nderson, Jessica 

M
arie 

12/20/1990 
17708 46T

h C
t N

 
Loxahatchee, F

L 
33470 

R
P

T
 

51108 
11/05/2013 

G
reene, C

andace 
10/31/1 990 

W
inn D

ixie 
2678 C

orby D
r A

pt 1312 
O

range C
ity, F

L 
32763 

R
P

T
 

51109 
11/05/2013 

B
row

n, K
aniya D

 
10/01/1990 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 4410 P

orpoise D
rive 

T
am

pa, F
L 33617 

R
P

T
 

51110 
11/05/2013 

R
ice, K

eno S
haquill 

08/31/1992 
A

nthem
 C

ollege-O
rlando 

3050 B
row

n A
ve 

M
t D

ora, F
L 

32703 
R

P
T

 
51111 

11/05/2013 
D

avis, K
arla S

 
07/28/1993 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 3804W

. C
raw

ford S
treet 

T
am

pa, F
L 33614 

R
P

T
 

51112 
11/05/2013 

C
abrera, A

lda 
N

 
04/29/1989 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 3726 W

. Idlew
ild C

ircle 
#119 

T
am

pa, F
L 33614 

R
P

T
 

51113 
11/05/2013 

C
olem

an, D
estiny J 

07/23/1 988 
W

alm
art A

nd 'S
 

C
lub P

harm
acies 

8090 A
tlantic B

lvd A
pt 

C
-508 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32211 

R
P

T
 

51114 
11/05/2013 

S
aunders, Jonetia 

M
ontrice 

07/1 3/1 992 
P

inellas C
ounty Job 

C
orps C

enter 
500 500 22N

d S
treet 

S
outh 

S
t.P

etersburg, F
L 

33712 

R
P

T
 

51115 
11/05/2013 

O
rregoT

oro, A
lberto 

10/08/1986 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
15540 S

w
 80T

h S
t 

A
pt#102 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33193 

R
P

T
 

51116 
11/05/2013 

S
ulem

an, S
uhaylah 

Z
ulfikar 

12/04/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3905 W

ekiva S
prings 

R
oad 

Longw
ood, F

L 
32779 

R
P

T
 

51117 
11/05/2013 

C
am

bria, A
m

ber 
07/29/1989 

O
ther 

F
ortis Institute 

2311 W
ilson S

t 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33020 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



O
ivision of 

M
edical 'i/ A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
1
1
:
4
1
:
3
7
P
M
 

P
a
g
e
 3
 of36 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51118 
11/05/2013 

C
astro, F

eige 
10/17/1991 

21568 W
indham

 R
un 

E
stero, F

L 
33928 

D
ennise 

R
P

T
 

51119 
11/05/2013 

T
ooker, Lisa G

ail 
10/18/1961 

O
ther 

P
assassureds P

harm
acy 

T
echnician T

raining 
C

ourse 

240 S
e Laduke C

ourt 
Lake C

ity, F
L 

32024 

R
P

T
 

51120 
11/06/2013 

G
arcia-R

odriguez, 
Y

oanna 
03/29/1989 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
C

enter 
8843 N

w
 117T

h S
t 

H
ialeah G

ardens, 
F

L 
33018 

R
P

T
 

51121 
11/06/2013 

C
ookson, A

m
anda 

07/1 9/1 988 
P

inellas C
ounty Job 

C
orps C

enter 
500 22N

d S
t S

 
S

t.P
etersburg, F

L 
33712 

R
P

T
 

51122 
11/06/2013 

Z
am

brano, M
aria J 

03/20/1993 
O

ther 
M

ci Institute O
f 

T
echnology 

1862 A
bbey R

d A
pt 813 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33415 

R
P

T
 

51123 
11/06/2013 

W
orkm

an, R
achel 

E
rin 

10/14/1991 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

N
/A

 
O

cala, F
L 

34471 

R
P

T
 

51124 
11/06/2013 

B
reaux, G

ozel 
Jean-A

nne 
01/01/1985 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
5990 N

w
 16T

h 
P

1 A
pt 202 

S
unrise, F

L 
33313 

R
P

T
 

51125 
11/06/2013 

B
atres, A

dilene 
07/08/1993 

O
ther 

E
verest 

U
niversity-Lakeland 

200 G
ladys F

ew
ox R

d 
M

ulberry, F
L 

33860 

R
P

T
 

51126 
11/06/2013 

A
llen, Jennifer 

11/30/1989 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
388 P

eriw
inkle R

oad 
V

enice, F
L 

34293 
I 

R
P

T
 

51127 
11/06/2013 

G
oldy, A

aron 
C

hristopher 
02/03/1979 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1139 H
erbert S

t 
P

ort O
range, F

L 
32129 

R
P

T
 

51128 
11/06/2013 

A
sbury, S

arah 
E

lizabeth 
10/31/1993 

O
ther 

E
verest 

U
niversity-Lakeland 

137 C
arolyn D

r 
Lakeland, F

L 
33803 

R
P

T
 

51129 
11/06/2013 

C
ohen, D

iana A
rw

ay 
09/06/1953 

101 
S

. O
ld C

oachm
an R

d 
#214 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33765 

R
P

T
 

51130 
11/06/2013 

S
tetson, W

endy M
arie 

06/23/1987 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7001 E

stero B
lvd 

F
ort M

yers B
each, F

L 
33931 

R
P

T
 

51131 
11/06/2013 

R
eid-S

m
ith, R

acine N
 

11/30/1989 
Jacksonville Job C

orps 
C

enter 
631 

S
pice T

rader W
ay 

A
pt#A

 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

R
P

T
 

51132 
11/06/2013 

Iglesias, Jacqueline 
12/31/1985 

N
ational S

chool O
f 

T
echnology 

1725 N
 W

 79T
h A

ve 
D

oral, 
F

L 
33125 

R
P

T
 

51133 
11/06/2013 

G
edeon, R

ick 
06/15/1989 

7932 N
w

 5T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i, F

L 33150 

- R
P

T
 

51134 
11/06/2013 

B
urns, A

m
bur M

arie 
07/31/1982 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

175 S
r 312 

S
t A

ugustine, F
L 

32080 

R
P

T
 

51135 
11/06/2013 

D
avidson, A

m
anda 

G
ail 

10/27/1987 
610 E

glin P
kw

y N
e 

F
ort W

alton B
each, F

L 
32547 

R
P

T
 

51136 
11/06/2013 

H
am

ilton, S
andra 

E
lizabeth 

01/10/1971 
W

algreens 
#3250 18300 N

w
 37T

h 
A

venue M
iam

i G
arden 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33056 

R
P

T
 

51137 
11/06/2013 

F
uentes, T

ania 
05/23/1982 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

4054W
. 8 Lane 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

R
P

T
 

51138 
11/06/2013 

B
arber, N

ytacia 
01/09/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

210 N
w

 9T
h S

treet A
pt. 4 

M
iam

i, F
L 33136 

R
P

T
 

51139 
11/06/2013 

F
enelon, Judith 

02/08/1994 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
3032 C

alvin B
lvd. 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33901 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxlS

l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 4 of 36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

1 A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51140 
11/06/2013 

C
unningham

, K
aylon 

Leora 
07/09/1991 

897 S
axon B

lvd 
O

range C
ity, F

L 
32763 

R
P

T
 

51141 
11/07/2013 

T
ulIer, Jeffrey P

eter 
11/11/1955 

O
ther 

S
cf V

ia M
rxl A

nd K
ushan 

E
ducation 

771 
P

lanters M
anorW

ay 
B

radenton, F
L 

34212 

R
P

T
 

51142 
11/07/2013 

Landa, D
ianelys 

11/14/1975 
O

ther 
M

ci Institute O
f 

T
echnology 

11676 P
ipit C

t 
W

ellington, F
L 

33414 

R
P

T
 

51143 
11/07/2013 

W
agner, B

rittany 
Lynn 

04/16/1991 
O

ther 
F

lorida Institute O
f 

T
echnology 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32314-6320 

R
P

T
 

51144 
11/07/2013 

W
aite, D

aniel 
G

raham
 

03/21/1 990 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

75T
h 2303 S

w
 75T

h S
t 

Jonesville, F
L 

32669 

R
P

T
 

51145 
11/07/2013 

S
zasz, M

atthew
 

D
rake 

07/08/1 990 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

16560 N
 N

ebraska A
ve 

Lutz, F
L 

33549 

R
P

T
 

51146 
11/07/2013 

S
nider, C

hristopher 
A

lan 
05/02/1964 

W
al-M

art 
232 H

idden B
ay D

rive 
#301 

O
sprey, F

L 
34229 

R
P

T
 

51147 
11/07/2013 

B
allew

, A
im

ee Leah 
10/21/1984 

T
arget C

orporation 
3103 C

aptiva B
luff R

d 
N

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32226 

R
P

T
 

51148 
11/07/2013 

A
lm

estica, B
rittney 

A
nn 

09/01/1 991 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida- 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

3137 C
onrad C

ourt 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34744 

R
P

T
 

51149 
11/07/2013 

C
ook, A

riel R
hiannon 

08/02/1983 
8703 F

ort Jefferson B
lvd 

O
rlando, F

L 
32822 

R
P

T
 

51150 
11/07/2013 

W
eiss, Lauren N

icole 
05/09/1986 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
7630 R

ed M
ill C

ircle 
N

ew
 P

ort R
ichey, F

L 
34653 

R
P

T
 

51151 
11/07/2013 

B
urgess, K

ayla 
A

ndrena 
10/21/1992 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

9900 S
w

 165 T
err 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33157 

R
P

T
 

51152 
11/07/2013 

C
isneros, Y

adira 
05/01/1981 

E
pM

edicalE
quipm

ent, 
Inc 

lO
7lO

N
w

7S
t#i0 

-___________________ 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33172 

R
P

T
 

51153 
11/07/2013 

G
riffith, Lisa C

arol 
02/10/1964 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
5965 S

traw
flow

er Lane 
F

lem
ing Island, F

L 
32003 

R
P

T
 

51154 
11/07/2013 

V
iola, P

atricia A
nn 

06/01/1986 
A

-i P
harm

acy 
12080 S

 Jog R
d 

P
ipers G

lenn, F
L 

33437 

R
P

T
 

51155 
11/07/2013 

R
idings, S

alena 
10/16/1989 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 4135 Land 0 Lakes 

Land 0 Lakes, F
L 

34639 

R
P

T
 

51156 
11/08/2013 

C
harles, Julia Lew

is 
10/12/1971 

780 N
e 199 S

tA
pt#107E

 
M

iam
i, F

L 33179 

R
P

T
 

51157 
11/08/2013 

D
unlop, D

even A
 

02/05/1993 
9251 U

niversity P
kw

y 
P

ensacola, 
F

L 
32514 

R
P

T
 

51158 
11/08/2013 

H
elton, D

arian K
eith 

07/08/1977 
2001 W

. G
ranada B

lvd 
O

rm
ond B

each, F
L 

32174 

R
P

T
 

51159 
11/08/2013 

A
treidis, Jennifer R

uth 
05/22/1971 

3202 S
e F

ederal H
w

y 
S

tuart, F
L 

34997 

R
P

T
 

51160 
11/08/2013 

M
cpherson, D

eneese 
N

icole 
04114/1981 

222 C
heshire C

ourt 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34758 

R
P

T
 

51161 
11/08/2013 

R
obles, H

ector Luis 
11/26/1991 

911 H
offner A

ve 
O

rlando, F
L 

32809 

R
P

T
 

51162 
11/08/2013 

B
each, E

m
ily G

ayle 
04/09/1992 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
383 S

pringhaven Loop 
S

pring H
ill, 

F
L 

34608 

R
P

T
 

51163 
11/08/2013 

C
harles, S

am
antha 

03/14/1986 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
17855 N

w
 18 A

venue 
M

iam
i G

ardens, 
F

L 
33056 

R
P

T
 

51164 
11/08/2013 

A
lvarez, A

gnelys 
08/02/1983 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

16145 N
w

 20 A
venue 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33054 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 



D
ivision of Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Page 5 of 36 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51165 
11/08/2013 

H
arrell, Q

uentin 
03/14/1989 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51166 
11/08/2013 

W
ashington, S

kye P
 

05/07/1983 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 606 P
olynesian C

t. 
K

issim
m

ee, 
F

L 
34758 

R
P

T
 

51167 
11/08/2013 

B
utler, G

ina 
03/12/1 991 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51168 
11/08/2013 

Irizarry, O
lga Luz 

11/11/1982 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
2113 W

illesdon D
r E

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32246 

R
P

T
 

51169 
11/08/2013 

Jordan, Jerrica 
D

om
inique 

05/30/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
3203 F

air F
ax S

t. 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32209 

R
P

T
 

51170 
11/08/2013 

P
ierre-Louis, Jam

es 
02/13/1986 

W
algreens 

411 C
hapel D

r A
pt 119 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32304 

R
P

T
 

51171 
11/08/2013 

Lacy, T
am

m
y S

ue 
11/04/1964 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
4000 4000 N

. G
oldenrod 

R
d 4000 N

. G
oldenrod R

d 
W

inter P
ark, F

L 
32792 

R
P

T
 

51172 
11/08/2013 

N
gam

siri, N
ath 

07/20/1 987 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
9410 C

aribbean B
lvd 

C
utler B

ay, 
F

L 
33189 

R
P

T
 

51173 
11/08/2013 

M
ikeIl, M

ichele C
aitlyn 

12/09/1992 
O

ther 
Lee C

ounty H
igh T

ech 
C

enter N
orth 

2120 N
w

 2N
d 

P
1 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33993 

R
P

T
 

51174 
11/08/2013 

N
ava, G

abrielle 
12/31/1987 

C
om

plete P
harm

acy 
A

nd M
edical S

olutions 
5829 N

w
 158T

h S
treet 

M
iam

i Lakes, F
L 

33014 

R
P

T
 

51175 
11/08/2013 

P
acheco, N

air C
ecilia 

07/22/1956 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

201 
H

arbor C
ity P

ky, 
A

pto 
G

 340 
M

elbourne, 
F

L 
32937 

R
P

T
 

51176 
11/08/2013 

P
erson, A

rnold 
06/20/1994 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

117 M
iam

i G
ardens R

oad 
W

est P
ark, F

L 
33023 

R
P

T
 

51177 
11/08/2013 

P
erez, M

aritza V
 

09/1 4/1 962 
M

iam
i S

unset A
dult 

E
ducation 

C
enter;M

iam
i S

unset 
A

dult E
ducation C

enter 

1510 S
w

 149 A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33194 

R
P

T
 

51178 
11/08/2013 

T
hom

as B
row

n, 
S

tacey A
nnm

arie 
07/24/1975 

W
algreens 

7372 B
eacon H

ill 
A

partm
ent #2 A

pt #2 
O

rlando, F
L 

32818 

R
P

T
 

51179 
11/08/2013 

O
riundo, Janira 

12/18/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3212 C

urry F
ord R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32806 

R
P

T
 

51180 
11/08/2013 

Jenkins, 
M

ikeya 
R

aynisha 
11/12/1989 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
5481 T

im
berleaf B

lvd A
pt 

1204 
O

rlando, F
L 

32811 

R
P

T
 

51181 
11/08/2013 

Laffin, P
atrick Jam

es 
08/23/1994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
8231 P

rinceton S
quare 

B
lvd A

pt 1416 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32256 

R
P

T
 

51182 
11/08/2013 

M
cniillon, D

ana Louis 
01/10/1967 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 915 7T

h S
treet N

orth 
S

afety H
arbor, F

L 
34695 

R
P

T
 

51183 
11/08/2013 

Lang, M
elanie 

11/14/1959 
W

alm
art A

nd S
am

'S
 

C
lub P

harm
acies 

4763 W
est Irlo B

ronson 
M

em
orial H

w
y 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34746 

R
P

T
 

51184 
11/08/2013 

F
lores, Jannieleen A

 
01/24/1 992 

2760 D
aveston A

ve 
S

aint A
ugustine, F

L 
32084 

R
P

T
 

51185 
11/12/2013 

S
alas, G

abriela 
A

ndrea 
02/24/1995 

O
ther 

M
iam

i Lakes E
ducational 

C
enter 

199T
h 19930 N

w
 53R

d C
t 

Lot 275 
M

iam
i, F

L 33055 

R
P

T
 

51186 
11/12/2013 

W
itt, E

rikka S
um

m
er 

01/13/1992 
E

xpress T
raining S

ervices 
3483 Jabro D

rive 
P

ace, F
L 

32571 

R
P

T
 

51187 
11/12/2013 

P
erez, Ileana 

04/13/1972 
O

ther 
E

verest tnstitute 
1699W

. 68 S
treet 

H
ialeah, F

L 33014 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



of Q
uality A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

Pvt 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

P
age 6 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51188 
11/12/2013 

Lovato, T
om

m
ie B

rent 
03123/1992 

W
algreens 

3514 N
w

 7T
h P

lace 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32607 

R
P

T
 

51189 
11/12/2013 

Johnson, A
bigail Joy 

09/10/1986 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4292 N

 A
tlantic A

ve 
C

ocoa B
each, F

L 
32931 

R
P

T
 

51190 
11/12/2013 

Lainez, K
iara D

 
03/25/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

150 
S

e 3R
d A

ve 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33131 

R
P

T
 

51191 
11/12/2013 

Lee, Jessica T
ayler 

03/02/1994 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

19100 S
 T

am
iam

i T
rail 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33908 

R
P

T
 

51192 
11/12/2013 

M
esa, S

thefany 
09/25/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2900 B
oggy C

reek R
d. 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34744 

R
P

T
 

51193 
11/12/2013 

M
allory, S

ara Lee 
07/26/1983 

13136 C
arrollw

ood C
reek 

D
rive 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 
33624 

R
P

T
 

51194 
11/12/2013 

M
ckinley, N

ataila 
N

icole 
04/23/1993 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51195 
11/12/2013 

M
tpleasant, K

risti A
nn 

12/26/1977 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4504 26T

h S
t S

w
 

Lehigh A
cres, F

L 
33973 

R
P

T
 

51196 
11/12/2013 

K
ow

, Jenny 
08/22/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7300 C
urry F

ord 
R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32822 

R
P

T
 

51197 
11/12/2013 

P
iedra, R

yan 
05/22/1989 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

101 
E

. 59 S
treet 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33013 

R
P

T
 

51198 
11/12/2013 

M
cguigan, M

arguerite 
M

arie 
02/19/1959 

W
algreens 

31 20 K
athleen R

d 
Lakeland, F

L 33810 

R
P

T
 

51199 
11/12/2013 

M
oore, R

om
ie 

09/28/1993 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 711 
E

. Lotus A
venue 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33612 

R
P

T
 

51200 
11/12/2013 

O
rta, M

aria E
ugenia 

12/17/1986 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

201 
7753 N

w
 201 T

err 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33015 

R
P

T
 

51201 
11/12/2013 

P
erkins, D

eidra D
 

10/28/1993 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
1646 W

est 45T
h S

t. A
pt. 

M
 172 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32208 

R
P

T
 

51202 
11/12/2013 

M
ichael, O

pheIia 
11/05/1971 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

646 S
w

 B
lvd 

N
 

S
t.P

ete, F
L 

33703 

R
P

T
 

51203 
11/12/2013 

P
atel, D

eep 
09/08/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

12112 K
nights K

rossing 
C

ircle 202 
O

rlando, F
L 

32817 

R
P

T
 

51204 
11/12/2013 

P
ine, C

aitlin E
lizabeth 

06/20/1991 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

2420 S
anta B

arbara B
lvd 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33914 

R
P

T
 

51205 
11/12/2013 

P
eace, W

illiam
 

Jonathan 
04/27/1 982 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
161 

S
w

 S
tonegate T

err. 
Lake C

ity, F
L 32024 

R
P

T
 

51206 
11/12/2013 

Lew
is, D

arron 
11/12/1991 

W
alm

artA
nd S

am
'S

 
C

lub P
harm

acies 
987O

B
ayleafC

t 
P

arkland, F
L 

33076 

R
P

T
 

51207 
11/12/2013 

M
erritt, D

initria 
S

henee 
11/10/1992 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51208 
11/12/2013 

C
hester-R

om
sey, 

C
ourtney M

arie 
10/06/1988 

C
oastal C

arolina C
om

m
 

C
oil 

1880 P
ristine T

rail 
O

range C
ity, F

L 
32763 

R
P

T
 

51209 
11/12/2013 

W
alkins, S

herica 
E

rica 
03/31/1984 

O
ther 

B
arry U

niversity 
920 S

.W
 15T

h T
errace 

A
ptA

 
F

ort Lauderdale, 
F

L 
33312 

R
P

T
 

51210 
11/12/2013 

John, A
dedeji 

A
dem

ola 
10/27/1991 

W
algreens 

145 O
ak G

rove C
t 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32789 

R
P

T
 

51211 
11/12/2013 

O
lism

a, K
erven 

06/27/1986 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
10735 E

ureka S
treet 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33428 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/201423:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: 
L

icense D
ate 

Page 7 of36 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51212 
11/12/2013 

M
asson, B

randori 
C

hristopher 
09/02/1995 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

11375W
 A

tlantic B
lvd 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33071 

R
P

T
 

51213 
11/12/2013 

Jacobs-M
oore, 

H
arvey N

eilson 
02/18/1958 

W
algreens 

23469 C
him

es A
venue 

P
ort C

harlotte, 
F

L 
33980 

R
P

T
 

51214 
11/12/2013 

K
urtzner, T

heresa 
M

ary 
11/12/1971 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
500 E

ast Lake R
aod 

P
alm

 H
arbor, F

L 
34685 

R
P

T
 

51215 
11/12/2013 

Lorenzi, Jacob 
W

illiam
 

03/15/1991 
W

algreens 
279 279 H

ernando R
d. 

W
interhaven, F

L 
33884 

R
P

T
 

51216 
11/12/2013 

M
anneru, V

asanthi 
03/29/1974 

O
ther 

R
ite A

id C
ertified 

T
echnician 

467 C
abernet P

1 
S

aint A
ugustine, F

L 
32084 

R
P

T
 

51217 
11/12/2013 

M
edina, Luz 

07/10/1958 
O

ther 
M

ci Institute O
f 

T
echnology 

885 S
um

ter R
oad E

st 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33415 

R
P

T
 

51218 
11/12/2013 

Z
ietlow

-H
ossain, 

K
ristine 

03/21/1968 
O

ther 
S

anford B
row

n Institute 
T

am
pa 

9015 A
venue C

lub 
D

r. 
A

pt#101 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33637 

R
P

T
 

51219 
11/12/2013 

R
ow

e, Lindsey N
icole 

11/15/1990 
W

al-M
art 

23101 D
over D

r. 
Land 0 Lakes, F

L 
34639 

R
P

T
 

51220 
11/12/2013 

Jones, V
onessa Lea 

M
ae 

01/1 8/1 993 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
2820 S

w
 3R

d S
treet 

F
ort Lauderdale, 

F
L 

33312 

R
P

T
 

51221 
11/12/2013 

Linn, K
athleen 

T
heresa 

11/18/1985 
C

vsC
arem

ark 
599O

S
outh P

ointe 
B

oulevard 
F

ortM
yers, 

F
L 

33919 

R
P

T
 

51222 
11/12/2013 

M
ontes Lopez, 

Jessica 
02/10/1994 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
6620 P

atricia D
r 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33413 

R
P

T
 

51223 
11/12/2013 

Johnson, M
ichelle 

T
reriise 

09/22/1990 
12911 W

ood S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33167 

R
P

T
 

51224 
11/12/2013 

O
livo, W

anda 
I 

05/02/1960 
W

al-M
art 

2020 A
ndrom

eda Ln 
W

eston, F
L 

33327 

R
P

T
 

51225 
11/12/2013 

M
agavero, S

arah 
M

arie 
02/03/1994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
11400 R

idge R
d 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

34654 

R
P

T
 

51226 
11/12/2013 

S
afford, Jerridean 

10/27/1955 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1080 S
heeler O

aks 
A

popka, F
L 

32703 

R
P

T
 

51227 
11/12/2013 

lnigo, D
ianny 

11/19/1991 
W

algreens 
132651 

N
w

 l3S
tA

pt# 
34 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33125 

R
P

T
 

51228 
11/12/2013 

M
oore, K

atrina M
arie 

01/15/1980 
W

algreens 
1103 U

s H
w

y 331 
S

 
D

efuniak S
prings, F

L 
32435 

R
P

T
 

51229 
11/12/2013 

H
arrell, K

aitlyn 
B

 reanne 
06/02/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

894 E
nterprise C

t E
A

pt B
 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32227 

R
P

T
 

51230 
11/13/2013 

V
aiyanet, C

arissa 
K

aitlyn 
02/27/1989 

O
ther 

T
am

pa F
am

ily P
harm

acy 
2919W

 S
w

ann A
ve S

te 
101 

T
am

pa, F
L 33609 

R
P

T
 

51231 
11/13/2013 

W
allace, N

icole Jo 
10/13/1989 

W
algreens 

9640 S
r 72 

S
arasota, F

L 
34241 

R
P

T
 

51232 
11/13/2013 

H
olgate, Julia Lileen 

10/27/1960 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
1700 N

w
 58T

h T
err A

pt 
2N

 
S

unrise, F
L 33313 



R
P

T
 

51233 
11/13/2013 

R
am

phal, T
risha 

10/09/1989 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
28T

h 10217 
N

. 28T
h 

S
treet 

T
am

pa, 

O
rlando, F

L 
32808 

R
P

T
 

51234 
11/13/2013 

K
errutt, S

andra 
R

ohini 
06/01/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6217 S
ilver S

tar 

T
ierra V

erde, F
L 

33715 
R

P
T

 
51235 

11/13/2013 
O

rton, E
ric G

lenn 
01/24/1969 

722 P
inellas B

ayw
ay 

A
pt #104 

C
hapel, F

L 
33543 

R
P

T
 

51236 
11/13/2013 

T
urner, Lee R

obert 
02/02/1975 

O
ther 

S
anford-B

row
n T

am
pa 

3838 Langdrum
 

W
esley 

P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
R

P
T

 
51237 

11/13/2013 
P

eterson, S
hakara D

 
12/26/1990 

O
ther 

M
edical Instuite O

f P
alm

 
B

each 
4583 C

herry R
oad 

33417 
F

L 
34714 

R
P

T
 

51238 
11/13/2013 

P
atel, S

anjiv 
02/12/1964 

T
m

rx V
entures, L.L.C

. 
16744 C

agan C
rossing 

B
lvd S

te 207 A
 

S
t 

F
L 

33712 
R

P
T

 
51239 

11/13/2013 
M

cphee, Jalisa M
arie 

11/22/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2400 15T

h A
ve S

 A
pt 55 

P
etersburg, 

F
ort 

F
L 

33913 
R

P
T

 
51240 

11/13/2013 
M

aynard, P
atricia A

nn 
04/20/1969 

12633 S
hannon D

ale D
r. 

S
t 

M
yers, 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

F
L 

R
P

T
 

51241 
11/13/2013 

F
arshid, Joshua 

03/15/1983 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

9240 N
w

 
33024 

F
L 

33183 
R

P
T

 
51242 

11/13/2013 
N

unez O
rtega, T

ania 
T

 
11/27/1973 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
C

enters 
5975 S

w
 137T

h A
ve A

pt 
401 

F
L 

33174 
R

P
T

 
51243 

11/13/2013 
P

erez B
lanco, M

aria 
E

lena 
10/11/1954 

M
y F

am
ily P

harm
acy &

 
D

iscount, LIc 
180 S

w
 104 C

t 

22N
d S

IW
 

M
iam

i, 

B
radenton, F

L 
34207 

R
P

T
 

51244 
11/14/2013 

Z
epeda, C

hristopher 
A

braham
 

08/13/1992 
F

am
ilycare D

iscount 
P

harm
acy 

5720 

N
orth P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

R
P

T
 

51245 
11/14/2013 

T
aylan, S

am
antha 

N
icole 

09/03/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
312 N

orthlake B
lvd 

33408 

Lakeland, F
L 

33803 
R

P
T

 
51246 

11/14/2013 
W

ells, S
arah 

04/09/1988 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Lakeland 
702 W

infree A
ve A

pt. 
3 

LotT
 

F
L 

33610 
R

P
T

 
51247 

11/14/2013 
N

eri, R
om

eo M
 

05/19/1965 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

B
randon C

am
pus 

9915 
E

. E
llicott 

T
am

pa, 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

F
L 

R
P

T
 

51248 
11/14/2013 

R
aniirez, D

ebbie 
08/22/1 989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8640 T
aft 

B
lvd 

33024 

B
urinell, F

L 
32110 

R
P

T
 

51249 
11/14/2013 

T
hom

as, Julia L 
05/08/1 987 

W
algreens 

5324 M
ahogany 

D
rive 

O
rlando, F

L 
32839 

R
P

T
 

51250 
11/14/2013 

T
ejada, E

lizabeth 
M

ichelle 
02/22/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

56595659 T
elipa 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34743 

R
P

T
 

51251 
11/14/2013 

A
lm

odovar R
ivera, 

N
ikole 

10/07/1994 
O

ther 
P

rofessional A
nd 

T
echnical H

igh S
chool 

2638 Judge Loop 

B
each, F

L 
33445 

R
P

T
 

51252 
11/14/2013 

B
ulay, E

sin 
01/03/1958 

W
algreens 

1090 N
w

20 A
ve 

P
ark C

ircle 

D
elray 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51253 
11/14/2013 

T
aylor, A

shlae 
N

 
10/02/1989 

W
algreens 

8337 

P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 
R

P
T

 
51254 

11/14/2013 
P

erdom
o-S

nyder, 
A

nita Lee 
05/28/1970 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
ii! 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 8 of36 

PL
 Location 

P
L A

ddress 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
4 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uolily A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 9 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:01/22/201423:41:15 

O
N

D
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51255 
11/14/2013 

D
im

anche, E
dna 

07/03/1 993 
O

ther 
M

ci Institute O
f 

T
echnology 

133 S
w

 9T
h A

venue 
B

oynton, F
L 

33435 

R
P

T
 

51256 
11/14/2013 

V
an, N

gon V
incent 

05/22/1 991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7996 C

onroy W
inderm

ere 
O

rlando, 
F

L 
32835 

R
oad 

R
P

T
 

51257 
11/14/2013 

W
illiam

s, V
anessa L 

10/12/1991 
O

ther 
M

edical Instuite O
f P

alm
 

B
each 

5027 N
lorthern Lights 

D
rive 

G
reenacres, F

L 
33463 

R
P

T
 

51258 
11/15/2013 

K
ing, F

innell 
L 

08/28/1973 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

122 W
indtree Lane 

W
inter G

arden, F
L 

34787 

R
P

T
 

51259 
11/15/2013 

Z
aronias, A

nthony C
 

01/16/1983 
W

algreens 
2598 B

ayshore D
r 

D
unedin, F

L 34698 

R
P

T
 

51260 
11/15/2013 

B
rightful, T

iffany R
ei 

06/23/1981 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

2254 21S
t A

venue S
outh 

S
aint P

etersburg, 
F

L 
33712 

R
P

T
 

51261 
11/15/2013 

H
ovatter, Justin S

cott 
04/02/1992 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
406 F

eathertree 
D

r. 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33765 

R
P

T
 

51262 
11/15/2013 

T
ancreti, M

ichael 
P

aul 
10/01/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5851 C
achette D

e R
iviera 

C
ourt 5851 C

achette D
e 

R
iviera C

ourt 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, 
F

L 
34655 

R
P

T
 

51263 
11/15/2013 

F
orrester, W

hitfield 
W

hittingham
 

09/20/1958 
2711 S

w
 120T

h T
errace 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33025 

R
P

T
 

51264 
11/15/2013 

B
arnw

ell, 
P

recious 
M

artha 
02/19/1994 

17400 N
W

 48T
h A

ve 
M

iam
i G

ardens, 
F

L 
33055 

R
P

T
 

51265 
11/15/2013 

W
alker, Isabella 

R
outlidge 

10/26/1965 
H

illsborough 
C

om
m

unity C
ollege 

C
ontinuing E

ducation 

6910 R
ock S

prings W
ay 

T
am

pa, F
L 33625 

J 

R
P

T
 

51266 
11/15/2013 

R
odriguez, Lidia 

09/01/1967 
F

lorida E
ducation Institute 

60 E
ast 3R

d S
t N

o. 
1208 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33010 

R
P

T
 

51267 
11/15/2013 

G
uillaum

e, G
uytchina 

06/01/1993 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
3821 N

w
 21S

t S
treet A

pt 
310 

Laudredale Lakes, F
L 

33311 

R
P

T
 

51268 
11/15/2013 

R
odriguez, Z

ady 
11/22/1981 

P
rofessional T

raining 
C

enters 
11400 W

 F
lagler S

t S
uite 

#109 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33174 

R
P

T
 

51269 
11/15/2013 

S
hepherd, Julie A

nn 
11/28/1975 

W
al-M

art 
9600 P

arksouth C
t #120 

O
rlando, F

L 
32738 

R
P

T
 

51270 
11/15/2013 

D
esam

our, E
rline 

09/03/1993 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1040 N
e 24T

h A
ve #8 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33062 

R
P

T
 

51271 
11/15/2013 

C
olon, P

edro M
anuel 

08/04/1966 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
2429 N

e 7T
h A

ve 
W

ilton M
anors, F

L 
33305 

R
P

T
 

51272 
11/15/2013 

G
lazier, A

rthur 
Q

uinton M
r 

04/01/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2205 89T

h A
ve 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32966 

R
P

T
 

51273 
11/15/2013 

A
lvarez, E

m
ily D

eann 
01/06/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1948 G
ardenia C

ii 
R

iviera B
each, F

L 
33404 

J 

R
P

T
 

51274 
11/15/2013 

E
pps, S

tacey 
08/22/1984 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

149 S
e 8T

h 
S

treet 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33990 

R
P

T
 

51275 
11/15/2013 

A
llen, Jade Janae 

02/22/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
1782 W

est 13T
h S

t 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32209 

R
P

T
 

51276 
11/15/2013 

B
uckheit, R

oberta 
Louise 

07/02/1 961 
92100 O

verseas H
ighw

ay 
T

avernier, F
L 33070 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uaIH
y A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

Jvt 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Processed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 
P

age 10of36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

1 A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51277 
11/15/2013 

D
avis, K

ayla Jane 
05/24/1988 

W
algreens 

37701 M
arch Ln 

Z
ephryhills, F

L 
33541 

R
P

T
 

51278 
11/15/2013 

R
abbani, A

vi 
06/13/1990 

B
arry U

niv 
1109 E

. H
allandale B

ch 
B

lvd 
H

allandale, F
L 

33009 

R
P

T
 

51279 
11/18/2013 

C
astor, O

rlando 
10/11/1992 

O
ther 

W
estside T

ech 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

323 14-6320 

R
P

T
 

51280 
11/18/2013 

W
iles, C

hristopher 
05/04/1989 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

T
am

pa 
1799 B

lair C
astle C

ircle 
1799 

R
uskin, F

L 
33570 

R
P

T
 

51281 
11/18/2013 

P
avia Lara, A

riel 
06/28/1971 

1255W
25T

h P
lane 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33010 

R
P

T
 

51282 
11/18/2013 

S
uhw

iel, M
argarita 

M
aria 

10/09/1977 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f 

F
lorida-C

ollege O
f 

P
harm

acy 

2843 T
haxton D

r. #38 
P

alm
 H

arbor, F
L 

34684 

R
P

T
 

51253 
11/18/2013 

Law
rence, Leesha 

Lam
e 

10/21/1 981 
O

ther 
A

tlantic T
echnical C

enter 
4420 N

w
 107T

h A
venue 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33065 

R
P

T
 

51284 
11/18/2013 

R
odriguez, Lynnette 

M
ercedes 

11/19/1984 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
14810 S

w
 77T

h S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33193 

R
P

T
 

51285 
11/18/2013 

M
iller, K

athy D
 

12/18/1967 
N

orth F
lorida 

P
harm

acy, Inc. 
110 S

w
 W

oodberry C
ourt 

Lake C
ity, F

L 32024 

R
P

T
 

51286 
11/18/2013 

S
arraga, N

echm
a L 

01/05/1969 
W

algreens 
4529 C

ove D
r. A

pt.107 
O

rlando, F
L 

32812 

R
P

T
 

51287 
11/18/2013 

T
ift, T

em
perance 

A
ndriana 

07/14/1 990 
C

oncorde C
areer 

Institute 
2348 C

ody S
treet 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33020 

R
P

T
 

51288 
11/18/2013 

W
orrell, F

abian R
ay 

09/27/1 988 
W

al-M
art 

11720 S
tate R

oad 574 
S

effner, F
L 

33584 

R
P

T
 

51289 
11/18/2013 

P
assley, C

ristina 
A

licia 
03/05/1988 

O
ther 

F
ortis Institute 

3222 N
w

 84T
h A

venue 
A

pt. 206 
S

unrise, F
L 

33351 

R
P

T
 

51290 
11/18/2013 

R
odriguez, D

isheam
a 

Ivette 
01/16/1982 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2187 H
ow

land B
lvd 

D
eltona, F

L 
32738 

R
P

T
 

51291 
11/18/2013 

W
atkins, T

avaris 
B

reyon 
07/20/1993 

W
algreens 

5108 N
orw

ood A
venue 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32208 

R
P

T
 

51292 
11/18/2013 

U
rrego-U

trera, 
M

ichael A
rturo 

01/09/1992 
O

ther 
F

ortis C
ollege 

1660 N
e l9lT

h S
treet 

A
pt #200 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33179 

R
P

T
 

51293 
11/18/2013 

V
eigel, A

ngie M
aria 

12/04/1977 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

B
randon F

lorida 
822 G

reenbelt C
ir 

B
randon, F

L 33510 

R
P

T
 

51294 
11/19/2013 

P
erederina, 

D
ekabrina 

08/19/1973 
O

ther 
P

inellas T
echnical 

E
ducation C

enters 
2117 Lakew

ood C
lub D

rS
 

A
pt 

L 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33712 

R
P

T
 

51295 
11/19/2013 

P
arady, C

orey A
llen 

09/05/1990 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
1016 A

sther S
treet 

Lehigh A
cres, F

L 
33974 

R
P

T
 

51296 
11/19/2013 

F
razier, Jam

es E
arl 

08/05/1966 
O

ther 
F

irst C
oast T

echnical 
C

ollege 
524 Juniper S

pring C
ourt 

S
t. A

ugustine, F
L 

32092 

R
P

T
 

51297 
11/19/2013 

A
bram

son, Janice 
05/26/1949 

2351 S
w

 C
hestnut Ln 

P
ort S

aint Lucie, F
L 

34953 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iicpdxl5l 5:01/22/201423:41:1S

 O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1

/
2
2
/
2
0
1
4
 
1
1
:
4
1
:
3
7
P
M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 : R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page II of36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_U

c.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
P

T
 

51298 
11/19/2013 

G
arcia, Janet A

 
05/30/1971 

O
ther 

M
edical Instuite O

f P
alm

 
B

each 
2424 A

venida M
adrid 

E
state 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33415 

R
P

T
 

51299 
11/19/2013 

G
alyon, M

argaret R
ita 

04/28/1971 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

1616 C
ape C

oral P
kw

y 
W

est 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33914 

R
P

T
 

51300 
11/19/2013 

D
allm

ann, T
eresa J 

04/30/1959 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3671 
D

ouble B
ranch Lane 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32073 

R
P

T
 

51301 
11/19/2013 

H
onaker, Jennifer 

Irene 
10/20/1987 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8075 C
anterbury S

t 
S

pring H
ill, F

L 
34606 

R
P

T
 

51302 
11/19/2013 

B
ridgelal, N

adia 
C

aroline 
12/20/1994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
15502 S

toneybrook W
est 

P
arkw

ay 
W

inter G
arden, F

L 
34787 

R
P

T
 

51303 
11/19/2013 

H
ernandez, N

ebi 
05/15/1975 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

3659 A
trium

 
D

r. 3659 
A

trium
 D

r. 
O

rlando, F
L 32822 

R
P

T
 

51304 
11/19/2013 

H
arricharan, A

shley 
G

eeta 
07/07/1993 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
2491 

P
rairie V

iew
 D

rive 
W

inter G
arden, 

F
L 

34787 

R
P

T
 

51305 
11/19/2013 

P
im

enta F
ilho, P

aulo 
S

araiva 
05/15/1993 

S
m

art P
harm

acy 
3792 B

arbizon C
irS

 
Jaclcsonvile, F

L 
32247 

R
P

T
 

51306 
11/19/2013 

C
onfrey, R

onald 
H

ubert John 
06106/1966 

8603 F
lorida M

ining B
lvd 

T
am

pa, F
L 33634 

R
P

T
 

51307 
11/19/2013 

E
vans, T

eandra 
Lashay 

01/31/1989 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
2511 

2511 64T
h S

treet 
W

est 
Lehigh A

cres, F
L 

33971 

R
P

T
 

51308 
11/19/2013 

A
dam

s, 
D

ana M
arie 

10/31/1984 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
10925 S

r 54 
N

ew
 P

ort R
ichey, F

L 
34655 

R
P

T
 

51309 
11/19/2013 

D
otson, T

yw
onia 

M
arceia 

01/05/1 989 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

5620 C
ollins R

d A
pt 821 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32244 

R
P

T
 

51310 
11/19/2013 

D
orcine, W

esney 
08/13/1992 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
211 

N
e 51S

t S
t 

O
akland P

ark, F
L 

33334 

R
P

T
 

51311 
11/19/2013 

H
icks, B

rittany 
C

ornelia 
05/31/1 995 

W
inn D

ixie 
906 5 M

ain S
treet 

Labelle, F
L 

33935 

R
P

T
 

51312 
11/20/2013 

R
om

ero, Lidio 
G

uillerm
o 

10/22/1981 
E

lsa P
harm

acy Inc 
25 S

t 555 E
 25 S

t 
H

ialeah, F
L 33013 

R
P

T
 

51313 
11/20/2013 

S
ykes, Justin 

10/14/1992 
P

inellas C
ounty Job 

C
orps C

enter 
609 W

est B
all S

t A
pt #6 

P
lant C

ity, F
L 

33563 

R
P

T
 

51314 
11/20/2013 

G
onzalez S

uarez, 
Y

anetsi 
10/27/1975 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

8794S
w

 12 S
tA

pt#105 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33174 

R
P

T
 

51315 
11/20/2013 

N
eal, A

udrey S
anders 

07/29/1964 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

6734 Lorain S
t 

O
rlando, F

L 
32810 

R
P

T
 

51316 
11/20/2013 

R
andall, C

helsea 
W

alker 
05/1 8/1 991 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

1182 B
etm

ar B
lvd 

N
orth F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33903 

R
P

T
 

51317 
11/20/2013 

P
olynice, M

agalie 
12/23/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2673 S

taley C
t. 

O
rlando, F

L 
32818 

R
P

T
 

51318 
11/20/2013 

N
guyen, 

M
ai T

hanh 
Q

uyen 
06/16/1985 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5388 D
ow

nington D
rive 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32257 

R
P

T
 

51319 
11/20/2013 

Jusufovic, F
end 

03/17/1995 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
8280 43R

d W
ay 

P
inellas P

ark, F
L 

33781 
I 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

N
ew

 L
icense C

O
M

PA
S D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 12of36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
P

T
 

51320 
11/20/2013 

Leavens, R
ebecca 

Lynn 
12/29/1967 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

99 M
agnolia D

rive 
A

uburndale, F
L 

33823 

R
P

T
 

51321 
11/20/2013 

K
ulsum

, S
aleha 

03/08/1981 
O

ther 
E

verest 
U

niversity,B
randon 

C
am

pus 

12425 F
airlaw

n 
D

r 
R

iverview
, F

L 
33579 

R
P

T
 

51322 
11/20/2013 

Z
orrilla, Joel Javier 

11/08/1991 
O

ther 
M

iam
i Lakes E

ducational 
C

enter 
197 19723 N

w
 49T

h P
lace 

M
iam

i G
ardens, F

L 
33055 

R
P

T
 

51323 
11/20/2013 

R
iddell, S

tacey 
R

enee 
01/22/1986 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2317 S

outh D
olphin A

ve 
M

iddleburg, F
L 

32068 

R
P

T
 

51324 
11/20/2013 

S
utton, T

abitha N
icole 

03/21/1985 
O

ther 
S

anford-B
row

n Institute 
Jacksonville 

999 S
w

 6T
h A

ve Lot9 
Lake B

utler, F
L 

32054 

R
P

T
 

51325 
11/20/2013 

R
einertson, C

orey 
R

enee 
01/30/1 991 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n 

Institute-Jacksonville 
844 W

arner R
oad 

G
reen C

ove S
prings, F

L 
32043 

R
P

T
 

51326 
11/20/2013 

T
akla, R

anda 
4401 S

heridan S
treet 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33021 

R
P

T
 

51327 
11/21/2013 

S
w

ederski, Jeffrey 
W

illiam
 

03/16/1985 
W

algreens 
2007 Linsey S

t 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33605 

R
P

T
 

51328 
11/21/2013 

W
illiam

s, C
ierria L 

03/27/1989 
C

oncorde C
areer 

Institute 
5270 N

orth O
range 

B
lossom

 T
rail A

pt 302 
O

rlando, F
L 

32810 

R
P

T
 

51329 
11/21/2013 

W
ood, Jennifer 

A
m

ber 
07/29/1 981 

C
oncorde C

areer 
Institute 

15024 C
ape Lane 

O
rlando, F

L 
32831 

R
P

T
 

51330 
11/21/2013 

S
trohm

inger, 
E

lizabeth A
nn 

12/08/1 992 
F

irst C
oast T

echnical 
C

ollege 
600 P

lantation Island 
D

rive 
S

aint A
ugustine, F

L 
32080 

R
P

T
 

51331 
11/21/2013 

Liu, T
sz F

ei 
10/21/1986 

202 Y
am

ato R
oad 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33431 

R
P

T
 

51332 
11/21/2013 

Irizarry, Jasm
ine 

Ivette 
06/30/1 986 

9600 P
arksouth C

t. 
O

rlando, F
L 32837 

R
P

T
 

51333 
11/21/2013 

Lester, T
iara A

rnese 
05/25/1988 

6815 B
iscayne B

lvd S
uite 

103-356 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33038 

R
P

T
 

51334 
11/21/2013 

Jean-B
aptiste, 

C
assandra 

01/16/1989 
11142 Lakew

ood P
ointe 

D
r A

pt 201 
S

effner, 
F

L 33584 

R
P

T
 

51335 
11/21/2013 

N
guyen, T

ho Jeffrey 
10/23/1991 

15174 N
W

 U
s H

ighw
ay 

441 
A

lachua, F
L 32615 

R
P

T
 

51336 
11/21/2013 

S
uarez, Jandro 

05/26/1987 
C

oncorde C
areer 

Institute 
3538 P

endleton W
ay 

Land 0 Lakes, F
L 

34639 

R
P

T
 

51337 
11/21/2013 

P
ingley, V

ictoria M
ary 

05/24/1979 
886W

 S
tate R

d 436 
A

ltam
onte S

prings, F
L 

32714 

R
P

T
 

51338 
11/21/2013 

C
epeda R

am
os, 

G
onzalo 

03/01/1989 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

65306530 S
w

issco D
rive 

A
pt 1127 

O
rlando, F

L 32822 

R
P

T
 

51339 
11/21/2013 

P
orto, Lauren 

06/27/1991 
W

algreens 
1820 O

ak T
rail W

 A
pt 113 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33764 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Pane 

13 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51340 
11/21/2013 

R
odriguez 

H
ernandez, Y

aim
i 

09/23/1984 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
3211 N

w
6S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

R
P

T
 

51341 
11/22/2013 

M
urray, D

orothea 
05/01/1991 

N
ew

 E
ra 

P
harm

aceuticals, Lic 
5801 

N
 F

ederal H
w

y 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33487 

R
P

T
 

51342 
11/22/2013 

Lavine, Jasm
ine E

va 
04/14/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5400 4T
h S

treet N
orth 

S
aint P

etersburg, 
F

L 
33703 

R
P

T
 

51343 
11/22/2013 

B
urke, C

harles 
E

dw
ard 

08/12/1992 
W

algreens 
2235 P

arr D
r 

T
he V

illages, F
L 

32162 

R
P

T
 

51344 
11/25/2013 

T
urenne, B

rinel 
04/05/1981 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
20 N

w
 19T

h S
treet 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33060 

R
P

T
 

51345 
11/25/2013 

K
nox, V

eronica 
Y

vonne 
08/17/1989 

O
ther 

A
tlantic T

echnical C
enter 

1400 N
e 56T

h S
t A

pt 111 
F

ort Lauderdale, F
L 

33334 

R
P
T
 

5
1
3
4
6
 

1
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
1
3
 

M
o
i
s
e
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
t
i
n
a
 

1
0
1
1
7
1
1
9
8
5
 

O
ther 

M
c
i
 
I
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 O
f
 

T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 

7
1
1
 
O
l
i
v
e
 T

ree C
ircle 

G
reenacres, F

L 
33413 

R
P

T
 

51347 
11/25/2013 

Lakatos, D
aniel 

P
atrick 

07/14/1993 
W

ells P
harm

acy 
N

etw
ork 

8228 S
e 126T

h P
lace 

B
elleview

, F
L 34420 

R
P

T
 

51348 
11/25/2013 

T
hom

as, S
aji 

04/25/1969 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

2828 Lafayette T
race 

D
rive Lafayette T

race 
D

rive 

S
aint C

loud, F
L 

34772 

R
P

T
 

51349 
11/25/2013 

P
erdom

o, LorE
 

08/24/1976 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5010 S

outh F
lorida A

ve 
Lakeland, F

L 
33811 

R
P

T
 

51350 
11/25/2013 

K
elly, Jason A

lan 
11/10/1985 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6373 N
w

 180T
h S

treet 
S

tarke, F
L 

32091 

R
P

T
 

51351 
11/25/2013 

P
rophete, Y

ouvens 
10/31/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
18 Laurel O

aks D
rive 

#204 
W

inter S
prings, F

L 
32708 

R
P

T
 

51352 
11/25/2013 

S
anchez M

arrero, 
Luis M

anuel 
07/16/1967 

O
ther 

2419 
4 S

e 21S
t A

ve 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33990 

R
P

T
 

51353 
11/25/2013 

Low
e, V

alentina-Joy 
E

llen-M
argret 

21324 S
t A

ndrew
s B

lvd 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33433 

R
P

T
 

51354 
11/25/2013 

Jones, V
alencia 

S
hauntel 

03/01/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2927 O

akcove Ln 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32277 

R
P

T
 

51355 
11/25/2013 

M
ontero, P

aola A
nali 

07/21/1983 
6720 N

w
 6T

h C
t. 

M
argate, F

L 
33063 

R
P

T
 

51356 
11/25/2013 

M
orton, N

ellie Jean 
10/06/1989 

O
ther 

S
anford-B

row
n Institute 

T
am

pa 
10406 R

ichardson S
t. 

G
ibsonton, F

L 
33534 

R
P

T
 

51357 
11/25/2013 

Johnson, E
rica Lynn 

02/22/1992 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

212 H
azeltine D

rive 
D

ebary, F
L 

32713 

R
P

T
 

51358 
11/25/2013 

K
inne, N

atasha 
05/11/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

760 N
e 181S

t S
t 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each, F
L 

33162 

R
P

T
 

51359 
11/25/2013 

V
arone, H

arrison 
12/27/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

4401 W
 G

andy B
lvd 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33611 

R
P

T
 

51360 
11/25/2013 

R
odriguez, T

heresa 
N

egron 
0
8
/
0
4
/
1
9
6
8
 

W
a
l
m
a
r
t
 A
n
d
 S
a
m
'
S
 

C
lub P

harm
acies 

ii P
ine T

race W
ay 

O
cala, 

F
L 

34472 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

P
age 14of36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51361 
11/25/2013 

T
edder, S

herri Lynn 
12/17/1965 

W
al-M

art 
1575 N

e 161 S
t P

1 
C

itra, F
L 

32113 

R
P

T
 

51362 
11/25/2013 

E
vans M

clean, K
indra 

A
lysse 

01/17/1977 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
420 N

orth M
ain S

treet 
B

ushnell, F
L 

33513 

R
P

T
 

51363 
11/25/2013 

K
illeen, Lisa Jane 

07/08/1972 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
13998 W

alsingham
 R

oad 
Largo, F

L 
33774 

R
P

T
 

51364 
11/25/2013 

P
alushaj, A

nxhela 
04/22/1 991 

W
algreens 

1728 E
l T

rinidad D
r E

 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33759 

R
P

T
 

51365 
11/25/2013 

Labelle, H
eather 

K
athleen 

10/27/1 965 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f 

F
lorida-C

ollege 
O

f 
P

harm
acy 

2966 G
rande O

aks W
ay 

F
lem

ing Island, F
L 

32003 

R
P

T
 

51366 
11/25/2013 

P
ezanetti, A

nthony 
R

yan 
05/07/1981 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2429 Jungle S

treet 
Lakeland, F

L 
33801 

R
P

T
 

51367 
11/25/2013 

N
eal, S

hakeriay 
Latavia 

03/14/1986 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

6734 Lorain S
t 

O
rlando, F

L 
32810 

R
P

T
 

51368 
11/25/2013 

O
N

eal, S
taceyA

va L 
07/18/1970 

N
ot P

racticing In F
lorida 

P
D

 B
ox 6320 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32314-6320 

R
P

T
 

51369 
11/2512013 

A
ponte, G

ustavo 
A

ndres 
11/08/1985 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
6601 W

oods Island C
ircle 

#4-201 
P

ort S
t Lucie, F

L 
34953 

R
P

T
 

51370 
11/25/2013 

Law
rence, S

um
m

er 
D

aw
n 

09/08/1988 
O

ther 
F

irst C
oast T

echnicial 
C

ollege 
3511 B

egonia S
treet 

S
t. A

ugustine, F
L 

32084 

R
P

T
 

51371 
11/25/2013 

P
oulos, Jennifer 

F
lynn 

04/28/1 993 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
- 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
3901 S

w
 20T

h A
ve #708 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32607 

R
P

T
 

51372 
11/25/2013 

P
ayne, K

risten P
aige 

11/20/1993 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

13170 A
tlantic B

lvd S
te 29 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32266 

R
P

T
 

51373 
11/25/2013 

B
eeche, S

helby Lynn 
06/04/1992 

W
alm

art A
nd S

am
'S

 
C

lub P
harm

acies 
20620 U

s H
w

y 129 
O

'B
rien, F

L 
32071 

R
P

T
 

51374 
11/25/2013 

B
urney, P

atricia S
ue 

01/16/1953 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1000 E

 T
arpon A

v 
T

arpon S
prings, F

L 
34689 

R
P

T
 

51375 
11/25/2013 

V
azquez D

e Llado, 
Y

am
ila 

07/17/1966 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

2253W
 74T

h P
lace 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33016 

R
P

T
 

51376 
11/25/2013 

G
reen, S

am
antha 

Lynn 
09/11/1991 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
2583 B

arbara Lane 
H

illiard, F
L 

32046 

R
P

T
 

51377 
11/25/2013 

H
ughes, Jana 0 

09/13/1983 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 17830 C
ounty R

oad 6 
E

ast 
Jasper, F

L 32052 

R
P

T
 

51378 
11/25/2013 

C
arter, C

asey 
D

eanne 
01/08/1 990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1005 S
outh O

hio A
venue 

Live O
ak, F

L 32064 

R
P

T
 

51379 
11/25/2013 

H
ines, B

rianna 
N

ichole 
12/31/1 994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
2603 N

w
 13T

h S
treet 

#177 
G

ainesville, F
L 32609 

R
P

T
 

51380 
11/25/2013 

E
l-S

alhy, B
randi 

02/13/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3904 N

w
 13T

h S
t 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32609 

1 

R
P

T
 

51381 
11/25/2013 

B
ouchard, A

pril 
S

usan 
04/10/1975 

W
algreens 

1650 D
unlaw

ton A
ve 

P
ort O

range, F
L 

32127 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic. p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 : R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal License D

ate 

P
age 

15 of36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

51382 
11/25/2013 

G
uevara, C

assandra 
D

aw
n 

07/21/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
660 E

ast B
usiness 

H
ighw

ay 98 
P

anam
a C

ity, F
L 

32401 

R
P

T
 

51383 
11/25/2013 

Leon, Y
unetsy 

10/16/1990 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

C
enters 

2441 
N

w
 13T

h S
t. A

pt62 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

R
P

T
 

51384 
11/25/2013 

K
assis, B

riana Lynn 
06/30/1995 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

10555 O
akhaven D

rive 
P

inellas P
ark, F

L 
33782 

R
P

T
 

51385 
11/25/2013 

Lopez A
breus, 

Y
es iney 

12/26/1 987 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

C
enters 

12430 S
w

 187T
h S

t. 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33177 

R
P

T
 

51386 
11/25/2013 

G
onzalez, M

elissa 
08/02/1984 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8820 B
rennan C

ir. A
pt. # 

308 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33615 

R
P

T
 

51387 
11/25/2013 

D
ix, K

ayla N
icole 

08/12/1988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
8717 8717 O

range O
aks 

C
ircle 

T
em

ple T
errace, F

L 
33637 

R
P

T
 

51388 
11/25/2013 

F
ernung, N

icole 
05/1 6/1 991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8518 Q
ueen B

rooks C
ourt 

T
em

ple T
errace, F

L 
33637 

R
P

T
 

51389 
11/25/2013 

T
hom

as, S
andra Lee 

10/27/1980 
W

algreens 
12895 Linden D

rive 
S

pring H
ill, F

L 34609 

R
P

T
 

51390 
11/25/2013 

C
oughlan, H

olly 
07/03/1980 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2502W
. H

illsborough 
A

ve. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33614 

R
P

T
 

51391 
11/25/2013 

M
organ, K

im
berly 

A
m

ber 
08/09/1988 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
Jacksonville 

302 D
ora Lloyd R

d 
F

olkston, G
A

 
31537 

R
P

T
 

51392 
11/25/2013 

Longw
orth, S

am
antha 

Lynn 
03/24/1989 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2040 W

ells R
oad A

pt 1S
F

 
O

range P
ark, F

L 
32073 

R
P

T
 

51393 
11/25/2013 

D
eleon, M

ary Louise 
09/18/1975 

5228 M
ontserrat D

r. 
Lakeland, F

L 
33812 

R
P

T
 

51394 
11/26/2013 

F
ranasiak, K

arly Joy 
08/12/1992 

W
algreens 

l35O
N

W
ickham

 R
d 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32935 

R
P

T
 

51395 
11/26/2013 

H
om

er, S
ylvia D

enise 
05/03/1990 

2004 T
idew

ater C
t. 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 33619 

R
P

T
 

51396 
11/26/2013 

C
elerito, S

teffany 
A

nne 
10/24/1986 

7730W
. C

onim
ercial B

lvd 
Lauderhill, F

L 
33321 

R
P

T
 

51397 
11/26/2013 

B
uchanan, E

lizabeth 
A

nne 
11/11/1989 

l5880S
um

rnerlin R
d 

F
ortM

yers, F
L 

33908 

R
P

T
 

51398 
11/26/2013 

Q
uinones, R

yan 
06/23/1993 

O
ther 

2419 - U
niversity O

f 
F

lorida - C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

9008 9008 H
arding 

A
venue 

S
urfside, F

L 
331 54 

R
P

T
 

51399 
11/26/2013 

R
ivera, S

w
annette 

M
arie 

02/22/1993 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

903 M
aplew

ood S
t 

T
avares, F

L 
32778 

R
P

T
 

51400 
11/26/2013 

G
onzalez, A

ndrea 
05/22/1 990 

8507 W
ayland C

t 
T

am
pa, 

F
L 33634 

R
P

T
 

51401 
11/26/2013 

F
ischoff, E

ileen 
07/10/1 964 

4297 O
ldfield C

rossing D
r. 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32223 

R
P

T
 

51402 
11/26/2013 

R
estrepo, A

na M
aria 

03/30/1 967 
D

rug D
epot 

4308 G
rouper Ln 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

34653 

R
P

T
 

51403 
11/26/2013 

Y
oungblood, 

Jerem
iah T

ecum
seh 

07/29/1990 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

27527 T
ierra D

el S
ol 

Ln. 
B

onita S
prings, F

L 
34135 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 

1
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
4
 
1
1
:
4
1
:
3
7
P
M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 16 of 36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l5:01122/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

LicN
br 

R
P

T
 

51404 
11/26/2013 

D
ahI, N

atasha M
 

08/22/1984 
410 S

corpio Lane 
O

range P
ark, F

L 
32073 

R
P

T
 

51405 
11/26/2013 

H
all, Jerem

y 
D

om
inique 

06/01/1987 
3040 A

lom
a A

ve F
3 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32792 

R
P

T
 

51406 
11/26/2013 

D
el T

oro, C
laudia 

09/25/1992 
763 N

W
 132 C

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33182 
R

P
T

 
51407 

11/26/2013 
B

lanc, V
ictoria 

E
lizabeth 

09/20/1992 
463737 S

tate R
d 200 

Y
ulee, 

F
L 

32097 

R
P

T
 

51408 
11/26/2013 

B
rito, Javier 

04/12/1989 
4307 N

. A
rm

enia A
ve 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 
R

P
T

 
51409 

11/26/2013 
H

usm
an, F

arouk A
llie 

01/04/1968 
12625 N

w
 23 S

t 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

33028 

R
P

T
 

51410 
11/26/2013 

H
ockey, S

arah 
E

lizabeth 
06/26/1987 

2460 E
ast B

ay D
r. 

Largo, 
F

L 
33771 

R
P

T
 

51411 
11/26/2013 

T
urner, Z

achary 
A

lexander 
03/11/1995 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
1631 D

el P
rado B

lvd S
te 

500 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33914 

R
P

T
 

51412 
11/26/2013 

G
onzalez, Juan 

A
ntonio 

08/15/1987 
15005 S

w
 88 S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 

33196 

R
P

T
 

51413 
11/26/2013 

P
arsa, Leyla 

10/12/1980 
O

ther 
C

ni C
ollege 

501 S
e 2N

d S
t. 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33301 

R
P

T
 

51414 
11/27/2013 

B
oehm

, A
m

ber Leigh 
06/16/1995 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6025 M
obile H

w
y 

P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32526 
R

P
T

 
51415 

11/27/2013 
H

odges, S
tephanie 

M
arie 

03/16/1992 
N

orth F
lorida 

P
harm

acy, Inc. 
347 S

w
 M

ain B
lvd S

uite 
102 

Lake C
ity, F

L 
32025 

R
P

T
 

51416 
11/27/2013 

C
orrea, Jorge M

 
11/02/1991 

7912 
N

 W
 164 T

errace 
M

iam
i Lakes, F

L 
33016 

R
P

T
 

51417 
11/27/2013 

G
arces, R

uth N
uem

i 
06/01/1986 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7575 O
sceola P

olk 
Line 

R
oad 

D
avenport, F

L 
33896 

R
P

T
 

51418 
11/27/2013 

A
rgueta B

erlioz, 
A

lexandra 
01/0611993 

998 S
w

 8T
h 

F
l 

F
lorida C

ity, F
L 

33034 

R
P

T
 

51419 
12/02/2013 

T
hom

as, Joeann K
 

01/02/1992 
O

ther 
R

asm
ussen C

ollege 
25350 U

.S
 H

w
y 19 

N
 A

pt 
104 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33763 

R
P

T
 

51420 
12/02/2013 

Z
abala, B

lanca R
osa 

03/01/1963 
O

ther 
F

ortis C
ollege 

9460 F
ountainbleau B

lvd 
#226 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 
33172 

R
P

T
 

51421 
12/02/2013 

S
ow

ards, Jodi Lang 
09/11/1969 

S
m

art P
harm

acy 
1650 S

an P
ablo R

oad 
S

outh S
uite 17 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 

R
P

T
 

51422 
12/02/2013 

R
igby, V

ictoria K
 

12/20/1989 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7330 C

urry F
ord R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32822 

R
P

T
 

51423 
12/02/2013 

T
ucker, Leah A

nne 
10/17/1975 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51424 
12/02/2013 

S
ingh, S

angeen R
 

09/15/1993 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

r 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

R
P

T
 

51425 
12/02/2013 

W
arsono, N

fn 
12/1 4/1 972 

O
ther 

A
tlantic T

echnical C
enter 

300 E
 O

akland P
ark B

lv 
#134 

W
ilton M

anors, F
L 

33334 

R
P

T
 

51426 
12/02/2013 

T
harpe, K

risten M
arie 

01/31/1994 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

2845 C
ounty R

d 210W
 

S
aint Johns, F

L 
32259 



D
ivision &

 
M

edical Q
uality A

ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 
17 of36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_licp_dxl515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
P

T
 

51427 
12/02/2013 

V
ogel, S

herri Lynn 
12/30/1969 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
B

randon C
am

pus 
1107 E

m
erald H

ill W
ay 

V
alrico, 

F
L 

33594 

R
P

T
 

51428 
12/02/2013 

R
obinson, T

ykeiah 
Irene 

04/07/1 993 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

1500 B
eville R

d S
te 300 

D
aytona B

each, F
L 

32114 

R
P

T
 

51429 
12/02/2013 

M
oroz, Liubov 

01/19/1965 
915 N

E
 8 S

t#206 
H

allandale B
each, F

L 
33009 

R
P

T
 

51430 
12/02/2013 

Linyushina, E
leonora 

A
lekseyevna 

08/31/1988 
1109 E

. H
allandale B

each 
B

lvd 
H

allandale B
each, F

L 
33009 

R
P

T
 

51431 
12/02/2013 

Joseph, C
laudel 

02/14/1972 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
12825 N

w
 13 A

venue 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33167 

R
P

T
 

51432 
12/02/2013 

M
yat, N

yein S
u 

07/02/1990 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1361 
S

 F
ederak H

w
y A

pt 
102 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33432 

R
P

T
 

51433 
12/02/2013 

P
italuga, G

ina 
09/28/1991 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

1819 N
w

 5T
h S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

R
P

T
 

51434 
12/03/2013 

N
odal, O

svaldo 
03/03/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

2450W
. 67 P

lace A
pt. 12 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33016 

R
P

T
 

51435 
12/03/2013 

Jones, T
yler S

teven 
09/30/1 994 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3520 Island C
lub D

r A
pt 6 

N
orth P

ort, F
L 

34288 

R
P

T
 

51436 
12/03/2013 

K
houzam

, P
eter 

07/16/1989 
4401 S

heridan S
treet 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33021 

R
P

T
 

51437 
12/03/2013 

U
ssery, Lori K

ay 
04/14/1972 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
11145 W

indhaven D
r S

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32225 

R
P

T
 

51438 
12/03/2013 

R
ivera, E

liza Jeanette 
08/12/1991 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
2985 2985 W

estview
 

C
ourt 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34746 

R
P

T
 

51439 
12/03/2013 

R
odriguez, M

aria 
Luisa 

08/06/1 990 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 701 
57 T

h S
treet A

pt B
 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33407 

R
P

T
 

51440 
12/03/2013 

S
teele, Jeffery 

Leonard 
09/20/1 987 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

5001 G
rande D

rive #122 
P

ensacola, 
F

L 
32504 

R
P

T
 

51441 
12/03/2013 

B
acallao S

osa, K
enia 

01/04/1971 
F

lorida E
ducation Institute 

3160 P
alm

 A
ve #2 

H
ialeah, F

L 33012 

R
P

T
 

51442 
12/03/2013 

S
chroeder, M

atthew
 

M
ichael 

07/17/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4141 N

orth B
each R

oad 
E

nglew
ood, F

L 
34223 

R
P

T
 

51443 
12/03/2013 

S
tuker, A

llison N
icole 

09/20/1984 
H

om
etow

n 
S

uperm
arkets, 

LIc 
512 S

w
 117T

h S
t. 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32607 

R
P

T
 

51444 
12/03/2013 

T
arris, C

hasity Y
vette 

08/20/1994 
O

ther 
A

tlantic T
echnical C

enter 
8429 F

orest H
ills D

r A
pt 

202 
C

oral S
prings, F

L 
33065 

R
P

T
 

51445 
12/03/2013 

S
tiltner-S

ulzener, 
A

ngel R
ose 

09/08/1984 
W

algreens 
5478 R

ogers A
ve 

P
ort O

range, 
F

L 
32127 

R
P

T
 

51446 
12/03/2013 

B
enjam

in, K
im

isha 
N

atalia 
03/20/1 991 

O
ther 

S
anford-B

row
n Institue 

Jacksonville 
10960 B

each B
lvd Lot 347 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32246 

R
P

T
 

51447 
12/03/2013 

D
esrosiers, M

ary B
eth 

07/06/1959 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
6217 S

ilver S
tar R

d. 
O

rlando, F
L 

32808 

R
P

T
 

51448 
12/03/2013 

B
rookins, S

abrina 
S

tarr 
02/01/1 987 

O
ther 

S
anford-B

row
n 

Institute-Jacksonville 
433 B

row
ard S

treet 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32204 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uoli1y A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 18of36 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkgjpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51449 
12/03/2013 

G
ates, A

llison 
J 

08/14/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
715W

 D
r M

artin Luther 
K

ing Jr 
S

effner, F
L 

33584 

R
P

T
 

51450 
12/03/2013 

B
lackburn, T

heresa 
M

aria 
09/1 3/1 980 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
2871 

C
layton C

rossing 
W

ay S
uite 1001 

O
viedo, F

L 
32765 

R
P

T
 

51451 
12/03/2013 

B
oynton, Juliet G

 
10/1 9/1 983 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1809 D

e B
arry A

ve. A
pt. 

B
7 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32073 

R
P

T
 

51452 
12103/2013 

Johnson, S
ham

ell N
 

02/1911985 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
3456 T

urkey O
aks D

r W
 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32257 

R
P

T
 

51453 
12/03/2013 

H
eppern, V

erniqua 
V

ernette 
11/26/1 990 

101 
E

 N
ew

 H
am

pshire 
A

ve #1 8B
 

D
eland, 

F
L 32724 

R
P

T
 

51454 
12/03/2013 

K
lishin, C

lint H
inson 

04/06/1994 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida 
C

ouege O
f P

harm
acy 

10365 10365 S
e C

ounty 
R

d 763 
A

rcadia, F
L 

34266 

R
P

T
 

51455 
12/03/2013 

B
row

n, A
lysha J 

07/28/1 992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1912 C

apeside C
ircle 

W
ellington, F

L 
33414 

R
P

T
 

51456 
12/03/2013 

D
aley, Leon D

w
ight 

05/05/1 994 
W

algreens 
3299 N

. W
oodland B

lvd 
D

eland, F
L 

32720 

R
P

T
 

51457 
12/03/2013 

B
onisteel, P

am
ela M

 
07/21/1 951 

W
algreens 

3851 4T
h S

treet N
 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33703 

R
P

T
 

51458 
12/03/2013 

G
rant, A

udrey R
ose 

09/24/1 991 
W

al-M
art 

5800 N
 H

ighw
ay 98 

Lakeland, F
L 

33809 

R
P

T
 

51459 
12/04/2013 

C
hillura, A

m
anda 

R
ose 

10/28/1 989 
2535 S

late R
oad 60 E

ast 
V

alrico, F
L 33594 

R
P

T
 

51460 
12/04/2013 

B
urgos, Z

ulm
arie 

09/21/1986 
O

ther 
P

harm
acy T

echnician 
C

ertification B
oard 

1251 S
e 27T

h S
t U

nit 206 
H

om
estead, F

L 
33035 

R
P

T
 

51461 
12/04/2013 

A
dam

s, C
rystal 

D
arlene 

10/13/1993 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1317 P
aradise Ln 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32792 

R
P

T
 

51462 
12/04/2013 

S
ikes, Justin E

llis 
01/06/1988 

P
ointe M

ed P
harm

acy 
1996 K

ingsley A
ve 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32073 

j 
R

P
T

 
51463 

12/04/2013 
A

ybar, C
ynthia 

02/23/1 978 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

863 B
ella V

ida B
lvd 

O
rlando, F

L 
32828 

R
P

T
 

51464 
12/04/2013 

B
anks, B

ianca 
T

yB
rittane 

10/02/1989 
1985 E

rving C
ircle A

pt 
8305 

O
coee, F

L 
34761 

R
P

T
 

51465 
12/04/2013 

C
alvo, Ileana 

11/03/1964 
V

ivi P
harm

acy, LIc 
2467W

 70T
h S

t 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33016 

R
P

T
 

51466 
12/04/2013 

D
iatlova, T

atiana 
06/24/1974 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

12380 S
w

 123R
d P

ass 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33186 

R
P

T
 

51467 
12/04/2013 

A
dderley, D

anesha 
Jeanette 

05/20/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

B
randon C

am
pus 

3030 M
oss H

ill S
treet 

Z
ephyrhills, F

L 
33542 

R
P

T
 

51468 
12/04/2013 

D
rum

m
ond, D

elaine 
04/12/1993 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

5831 W
ashington S

t. A
pt. 

43 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33023 

R
P

T
 

51469 
12/04/2013 

T
urner, C

arol 
La'T

rece 
05/1 011 986 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity B
andon 

5038 T
em

ple H
eights R

d 
T

am
pa, F

L 33617 

R
P

T
 

51470 
12/04/2013 

D
avila, 

S
haroll 

07/15/1992 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
1176W

. 37 T
errace 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

R
P

T
 

51471 
12/04/2013 

M
cguire, K

ristina 
M

arie 
09/26/1992 

410 
E

 Jolly R
oad 

Lansing, M
l 

48910 



O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
Jacksonville 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 

32854 C
rooked O

aks 
Lane 

13911 S
w

 42 S
treet S

uite 
203 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32211 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32208 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32526 

F
ort P

ierce, 
F

L 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34741 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 

S
unrise, F

L 
33313 

S
t.P

ete, F
L 

33712 

Leesburg, F
L 

34748 

M
iam

i, F
L 33175 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 

33060 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_liC

.P
_dX

l5l 5:01/2212014 23:41:15 
O

hID
 

D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

M
O

A
 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
1
9
 o
f
3
6
 

P
L L

o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 

P
L
 A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 

R
ank 

1002 
E

 H
ighw

ay 50 
C

lerm
ont, F

L 
34711 

R
P

T
 

51472 
12/04/2013 

C
hinea, F

rances 

LD
aim

ary 

08/14/1993 
O

ther 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

K
m

art P
harm

acy 

772 P
ondella R

d A
pt 267 

N
orth F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33903 
N

ew
 S

m
yrna B

each, F
L 

R
P

T
 

51473 
12/04/2013 

W
right, C

andyce 
M

egan 
04/29/1 985 

1930 S
tate R

oad 44 
R

P
T

 
51474 

12/04/2013 
P

ettit, R
osetta 

03/18/1967 

10525 S
w

 200 st 

32168 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33157 
R

P
T

 
51475 

12/04/2013 
H

atem
, M

ary R
ose 

03/19/1973 
O

ther 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

B
arry U

niversity 
798W

 31 S
t 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

R
P

T
 

51476 
12/04/2013 

E
spinoza, N

atalie 
B

ianca 
03/03/1995 

Inc. 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

—
 

2850W
. R

ainbow
 C

ircI 

449 W
est 46 F

l 

S
arasota, F

L 
34231 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33012 

W
inter S

prings, F
L 

32708 

R
P

T
 

51477 
12/04/2013 

C
hadw

ick, Joy M
 

11/16/1961 
Inc. 
Las V

illas P
harm

acy 
R

P
T

 
51478 

12/04/2013 
Leon C

haviano, Jorge 
Luis 

D
iscount A

nd M
edical 

S
upplies 

O
ther 

O
f F

lorida - 
351 M

ohaw
k T

rail 
R

P
T

 
51479 

12/04/2013 
B

ennett, Joy M
 

12/23/1966 

T
arget P

harm
acy 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
10500 U

lm
erton R

oad 
Largo, F

L 
34641 

R
P

T
 

51480 
12/04/2013 

C
lark, T

heresa A
nne 

08/29/1 964 
E

ast 

R
P

T
 

51481 
12/04/2013 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

D
udley, S

hanice 
N

icole 

51482 

51483 

12/04/2013 

11/09/1988 
O

ther 

12/04/2013 

F
oster, N

atalie Latrice 
11/07/1984 

R
P

T
 

D
am

io, M
ichelle 

E
lizabeth 

51485 

E
verest 

12/04/2013 

11/20/1983 

G
ebrehew

et, A
zm

era 
H

 

R
P

T
 

51484 
12/04/2013 

C
onner, K

athleen L 
01/04/1 

02/01/1967 
O

ther 

8090 A
tlantic B

lvd.E
1 17 

2134 B
urgoyne D

r 

5998 M
obile H

w
y 

1889 N
 U

s H
w

y 
1 

531 
Lake T

ivoli B
lvd A

pt E
 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

E
verest U

niversity 

51489 

51490 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

R
P

T
 

51486 
12/04/2013 

E
ager, K

iana M
 

11/25/1992 
A

labam
a 

1224 

6221 N
.W

. 
14 C

t 
51487 

51488 

12/04/2013 

12/04/2013 

E
lize, D

avid 

W
ilson, T

anyetta 
P

atrice 
06/08/1 973 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
2139 57T

h A
ve. S

o 
A

pt 501 

12/04/2013 

12/04/2013 

W
arr, S

tephanie 
M

arie 
05/28/1992 

R
P

T
 

51491 
12/04/2013 

V
aldes, M

elissa M
arie 

08/17/1993 

W
aIg reens 

S
aintil, Island 

10/13/1984 

O
ther 

P
assassured, Llc 

A
tlantic T

echnical C
enter 

416 S
w

 1S
t C

ourt A
pt 2 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

j 
P

rocessed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 : R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 20 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

R
P

T
 

51492 
12/04/2013 

E
dw

ards, 
K

andace 
05/02/1982 

B
ox 100174 

F
ort 

33310 

F
L 

33175 
R

P
T

 
51493 

12/05/2013 
R

odriguez, V
iviana 

10/15/1988 
C

om
plete P

harm
acy 

A
nd M

edical S
olutions 

11750 S
w

 18T
h S

t A
pt 

511 
F

L 
32428 

R
P

T
 

51494 
12/05/2013 

B
row

n, Leigh A
nn 

05/05/1 986 
W

ashington-H
olm

es 
T

echnical C
enter 

1242 M
ain S

treet 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33013 

R
P

T
 

51495 
12/05/2013 

S
alas, O

sm
ery 

06/08/1 993 
M

iam
i D

ade C
ollege 

633 E
 23 S

t 

M
ahan 

D
rive 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32308 

R
P

T
 

51496 
12/05/2013 

Lem
m

e-S
am

pson, 
A

udrey Lyn 
07/12/1971 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
A

ve 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33313 

R
P

T
 

51497 
12/05/2013 

S
aylor, Jeannell 

03/16/1992 
C

arem
art Inc 

813W
. 

86T
h C

ircle 
O

cala, F
L 

34481 
R

P
T

 
51498 

12/05/2013 
K

locke, S
usan 

C
hristine 

01/10/1964 
10255 S

w
 

N
W

 
F

L 
33770 

R
P

T
 

51499 
12/05/2013 

M
ackey, C

harity B
 

09/25/1982 
406 11T

h 

S
unrise, F

L 
33323 

R
P

T
 

51500 
12/05/2013 

F
oschini, T

eresa 
C

harlene 
12/29/1992 

4001 N
w

 118 T
errace 

F
L 

33634 
R

P
T

 
51501 

12/05/2013 
M

ccarthy, K
athryn 

Lee 
09/20/1 985 

5710 H
oover B

lvd 
T

am
pa, 

B
oca R

aton, F
L 

33428 
R

P
T

 
51502 

12/05/2013 
G

aviria R
estrepo, 

Laura 
06/26/1 991 

K
rs G

lobal 
B

iotechnology Inc 
9679 S

unny Isles 

R
d W

 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32210 

R
P

T
 

51503 
12/05/2013 

W
allace, Linda Joyce 

03/15/1950 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3743 S

tar 

B
lvd 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
R

P
T

 
51504 

12/05/2013 
V

adakkel, G
rashm

a 
C

hackochan 
10/25/1 992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3710 N
orth O

cean 
33308 

S
aint Johns, F

L 
32259 

R
P

T
 

51505 
12/05/2013 

H
ellm

ann, K
elsey 

S
uzanne 

08/04/1992 
450 S

r13 

Island R
d 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33991 
R

P
T

 
51506 

12/05/2013 
C

urtis, N
orm

a Jean 
03/02/1 941 

3015 S
w

 

#1 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33127 

R
P

T
 

51507 
12/05/2013 

S
am

uel, S
haina 

O
lesia 

09/13/1979 
O

ther;O
ther 

E
verest Institute;E

verest 
Institute 

5130 N
w

8 A
ve 

F
L 

33614 
R

P
T

 
51508 

12/05/2013 
R

am
irez E

ncinas, 
D

aniela M
onserrat 

02/08/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2502W

. H
illsborough 

A
ve. 

A
ve 

O
rlando, F

L 
32811 

R
P

T
 

51509 
12/0512013 

S
m

ith, Lashantis 
D

enae 
11/19/1987 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity- N
orth 

O
rlando C

am
pus 

24942494 R
avenall 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33144 
R

P
T

 
51510 

12/05/2013 
S

antana, LuisY
 

02/23/1975 
l492P

harm
aG

roup 
C

orp. 
6355 

S
tA

pt#1108 

Lakes B
lvd 

Lake W
orth, F

L 
33467 

R
P

T
 

51511 
12/05/2013 

B
eaubrun, P

ascal 
10/29/1987 

O
ther 

T
he M

anhattan Institute 
4535 Lucerne 
W

 #105 
C

t 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34759 
R

P
T

 
51512 

12/05/2013 
B

engochea-C
ollazo, 

M
ary A

ngelie 
07/1 7/1 981 

1148 S
aint T

ropez 

513 W
isteria R

oad 
D

aytona B
each, 

F
L 

R
P

T
 

51513 
12/06/2013 

B
onhom

m
e, A

lleyne 
P

hillippe 
09/18/1984 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

32118 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
4 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 21 of3S 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkgjptjic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/201423:41:15 O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51514 
12/06/2013 

D
em

etriou, G
eorgina 

04/14/1988 
O

ther 
S

outheastern C
ollege 

14541 B
ayhills D

r 
Largo, 

F
L 33774 

R
P

T
 

51515 
12/06/2013 

B
axter, K

eitrah T
iana 

12/23/1987 
O

ther 
F

ortis C
ollege 

11023 S
w

 167T
h S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 33157 

R
P

T
 

51516 
12/06/2013 

D
ixon, R

osem
ary 

11/29/1959 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

B
randon C

am
pus 

2912 N
. 26T

h S
treet 

T
am

pa, F
L 33605 

R
P

T
 

51517 
12/06/2013 

D
arling, Jonathan 

A
lexander 

03/05/1 994 
W

algreens 
315 W

est P
latt S

treet 
T

am
pa, 

F
L 33606 

R
P

T
 

51518 
12/06/2013 

R
andle, S

hanise T
 

11/30/1988 
F

ortis C
ollege 

3958 W
. D

 Judge D
r#133 

O
rlando, F

L 
32808 

R
P

T
 

51519 
12/06/2013 

B
luni, D

ebra Jane 
09/06/1957 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

P
ittsburgh P

a 
644 C

ity V
iew

 A
ve 

A
valon, 

P
A

 
15202 

R
P

T
 

51520 
12/06/2013 

C
ow

art, S
halaina J 

03/01/1986 
O

ther 
F

or-tis C
ollege 

223 
11830 S

w
 223 S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33170 

R
P

T
 

51521 
12/06/2013 

C
lark, A

shley 
11/14/1991 

O
ther 

F
ortis C

ollege 
268 S

t 12080 S
w

 268 S
t 

U
nit 28 

H
om

estead, F
L 

33032 

R
P

T
 

51522 
12/06/2013 

W
hitley, B

rittany 
M

ichelle 
01/06/1991 

W
algreens 

1515 N
. F

lager 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33401 

R
P

T
 

51523 
12/06/2013 

B
arnett, H

unter 
C

hristine 
06/01/1 992 

O
ther 

A
llied B

usiness S
chools 

8 S
hort V

ine S
t 

C
raw

fordville, F
L 

32327 

R
P

T
 

51524 
12/06/2013 

T
hom

as, A
ndrew

 
M

ichael 
09/07/1 986 

W
al-M

art 
2765 10T

h A
ve N

. 
P

alm
 S

prings, F
L 

33461 

R
P

T
 

51525 
12/06/2013 

S
ibrun, W

isner 
03/06/1 986 

F
lorida K

eys C
om

m
 

C
ollege 

6500 M
alony A

ve Lot 28 
K

ey W
est, F

L 
33040 

R
P

T
 

51526 
12/06/2013 

F
orchion, S

hanelle 
M

oneat 
01/13/1987 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

1913 A
rt M

useum
 D

r #46 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32207 

R
P

T
 

51527 
12/06/2013 

B
attle, D

aw
n M

arie 
01/01/1 979 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
473 W

ynfield C
ircle 

F
lem

ing Island, F
L 

32003 

R
P

T
 

51528 
12/06/2013 

G
raham

, M
ario Ii 

10/21/1992 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

8601 N
w

 186 A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33015 

R
P

T
 

51529 
12/06/2013 

F
atim

ah, K
ahkashan 

05/30/1991 
C

vs C
areniark 

114 S
w

 19T
h T

errace 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33991 

R
P

T
 

51530 
12/06/2013 

C
roffut, K

risten Lyn 
11/07/1991 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
3051 C

om
m

erce A
ve 

S
pring H

ill, F
L 

34609 

R
P

T
 

51531 
12/06/2013 

S
helton, R

acquel 
Lashay 

01/05/1987 
O

ther 
Indian R

iver S
tate C

ollege 
4123 37T

h D
rive 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32967 

R
P

T
 

51532 
12/06/2013 

E
lshaer, M

oham
m

ed 
10/26/1989 

C
vs C

arernark 
1929 B

ruce B
. D

ow
ns 

B
oulevard 

W
esley C

hapel, F
L 

33543 

R
P

T
 

51533 
12/06/2013 

C
abrera, A

lexa 
09/1 5/1 991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

4221 W
 S

pruce S
t U

nit 
2127 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 

R
P

T
 

51534 
12/06/2013 

B
rand, T

im
othy R

 
09/0911964 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
17905 C

raw
ley R

oad 
O

dessa, F
L 

33556 

R
P

T
 

51535 
12/06/2013 

P
erkins, Jonathan 

C
harles 

02/03/1985 
E

xpress T
raining C

enters 
3500 W

indm
eadow

s B
lvd 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32608 

R
P

T
 

51536 
12/06/2013 

D
eclark, Linda K

 
05/05/1963 

W
al-M

arl 
1334 Lech A

ve N
w

 
P

alm
 B

ay, F
L 

32907 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

I\4 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

P
age 22 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51537 
12/06/2013 

S
m

ith, R
achel 

N
anette 

02/1 8/1 978 
A

ssuredrx, LIc 
540 N

w
 4T

h A
venue A

pt 
2407 

F
ort Lauderdale, 

F
L 

33311 

R
P

T
 

51538 
12/06/2013 

B
ridges, A

m
anda 

Lynn 
08/27/1988 

W
algreens 

2420 E
. C

olonial D
rive 

O
rlando, F

L 
32803 

R
P

T
 

51539 
12/06/2013 

C
ardona, M

aria E
lena 

11/02/1986 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

31 060 A
venue D

 
B

ig P
ine, F

L 
33043 

R
P

T
 

51540 
12/06/2013 

A
m

os, S
arah P

age 
05/16/1979 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
14022 E

vening S
ky P

lace 
O

rlando, F
L 

32828 

R
P

T
 

51541 
12/06/2013 

C
abrera, D

onessa 
10/15/1981 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1205 W
est V

ine S
treet 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34741 

R
P

T
 

- 
51542 

12106/2013 
S

alcedo, D
oel A

lexis 
05/28/1960 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
8101 M

oritz C
ourt 

O
rlando, F

L 
32825 

R
P

T
 

51543 
1210612013 

B
atista, Jovanie T

oy 
08/23/1 994 

W
algreens 

2425 2425 U
.S

. 92 
Lakeland, 

F
L 

33801 
- 

R
P

T
 

51544 
12/06/2013 

S
trong, C

laudia 
E

laine 
12/22/1952 

1517 A
labam

a A
ve 

S
aint C

loud, F
L 

34769 

R
P

T
 

51545 
12/06/2013 

S
ellers, T

enise 
01/12/1989 

W
al-M

art 
27 A

iken S
treet U

nit B
 

N
orw

alk, C
T

 06851 

R
P

T
 

51546 
12/06/2013 

S
essions, Jason E

arl 
09/19/1973 

O
ther 

N
orth S

eattle C
om

m
unity 

C
ollege 

1904 E
ast S

cott S
t 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32503 

R
P

T
 

51547 
12/06/2013 

S
m

ith, Jam
erica 

S
hante 

03/10/1987 
O

ther 
Lively T

echnical C
enter 

1120 P
oplar R

d 
C

hattahoochee, F
L 

32324 

R
P

T
 

51548 
12/09/2013 

B
ostick, T

iffany 
09/11/1985 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7589 G
aribaldi C

r 
N

aples, F
L 

34114 

R
P

T
 

51549 
12/09/2013 

C
am

m
ock, S

am
ara 

A
llison 

09/11/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
8331 B

ernw
ood C

ove 
Loop #1402 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33966 

R
P

T
 

51550 
12/09/2013 

S
ikkem

a, D
aniel J 

08/28/1982 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 1805 N
 B

ay R
oad 

M
ount D

ora, F
L 

32757 

R
P

T
 

51551 
12/09/2013 

H
assan, B

ibi A
neeza 

06/29/1 991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5730 Lakeside D

rive A
pt 

405 
M

argate, F
L 

33063 

R
P

T
 

51552 
12/09/2013 

A
llaire, C

ory S
cott 

05/25/1990 
W

alm
art A

nd S
am

'S
 

C
lub P

harm
acies 

1375 P
oinciana R

d 
V

enice, F
L 

34293 

R
P

T
 

51553 
12/09/2013 

D
eniyanovich, A

shley 
A

rlene 
10/09/1992 

O
ther 

2419 U
niversity O

f 
F

lorida-C
ollege O

f 
P

harm
acy 

11150 4T
h S

treet N
 A

pt 
3904 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33716 

R
P

T
 

51554 
12/09/2013 

G
alindo, V

ilm
a K

arm
a 

01/09/1994 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
845 4T

h S
treet N

orth 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33701 

R
P

T
 

51555 
12/09/2013 

B
arksdale, C

helsea 
S

heree 
03/29/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1311 35T
h S

t 
N

 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33713 

R
P

T
 

51556 
12/09/2013 

M
itchell, Joi C

ourtnee 
12/12/1990 

866 P
ark Lake C

r. 
M

aitland, F
L 

32751 

R
P

T
 

51557 
12/09/2013 

R
uiz, N

ichole 
06/29/1993 

O
ther 

F
ortis C

ollege 
13520 S

w
 64T

h Ln 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33183 

R
P

T
 

51558 
12/09/2013 

G
arcia, Y

ennifer 
04/09/1992 

O
ther 

100 T
ow

er P
on C

ir A
pt 

#428 
Lake W

ales, F
L 

33859 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/201423:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 23 o136 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
O

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51559 
12/09/2013 

W
ilkinson, A

m
anda 

S
ue 

02/11/1989 
T

arget 
C

orporation;W
algreens 

1408 28T
h S

t N
w

 
W

inter H
aven, F

L 
33881 

R
P

T
 

51560 
12/09/2013 

S
m

ith, D
om

inique 
C

li n ique 
01/09/1 985 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
4853 Judy A

nn C
t. 

O
rlando, F

L 32808 

R
P

T
 

51561 
12/09/2013 

S
uthar, M

it 
03/20/1 989 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
2771 M

onum
ent R

d 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32225 

R
P

T
 

51562 
12/09/2013 

N
ova, Luban N

asreen 
09/27/1994 

916 S
 M

ain S
t 

B
elle G

lade, 
F

L 
33430 

R
P

T
 

51563 
12/09/2013 

M
eierdierck, M

ichael 
John 

08/23/1968 
2633 F

orest R
idge D

rive 
F

ernandina B
each, F

L 
32034 

R
P

T
 

51564 
12/09/2013 

Joslyn, B
rooke 

K
risten 

06/08/1 994 
450 S

tate R
oad 13 #109 

S
aint Johns, F

L 
32259 

R
P

T
 

51565 
12/09/2013 

Lovince, Judith 
04/29/1 995 

3580 
N

J. F
ederal H

ighw
ay 

Lighthouse P
oint, 

F
L 

33064 

R
P

T
 

51566 
12/09/2013 

R
osier, N

ajee K
atia 

09/10/1987 
W

algreens 
1920W

 B
lue H

eron B
lvd 

R
iviera B

each, F
L 

33404 

R
P

T
 

51567 
12/09/2013 

V
an V

alkenburg, 
T

eresa A
nn 

08/02/1969 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niv.;E

verest 
U

niversity 
2120 B

ridle P
ath 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32935 

R
P

T
 

51568 
12/09/2013 

R
uiz, O

liver 
09/28/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

280 E
ast 56 S

treet 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33013 

R
P

T
 

51569 
12/09/2013 

M
edina, M

ario 
03/27/1960 

M
ed-S

ource P
harm

acy 
S

ervices C
orporation 

i 1800 S
w

 18 S
treet A

pt 
5Q

4 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33175 

R
P

T
 

51570 
12/09/2013 

D
unbar-K

aravakis, 
A

im
ee 

08/06/1973 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5300 S

 John Y
oung 

P
arkw

ay 
O

rlando, F
L 

32839 

R
P

T
 

51571 
12/09/2013 

P
adua, D

avid 
A

nthony 
08/15/1989 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

701 
S

w
 62N

d B
lvd A

pt 
Y

176C
 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32607 

R
P

T
 

51572 
12/09/2013 

Louis-C
harles, 

K
enneth 

08/03/1976 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

P
enn C

 1134 P
enn C

t N
w

 
P

alm
 B

ay, 
F

L 
32907 

R
P

T
 

51573 
12/09/2013 

P
im

entel, M
ark A

lexis 
11/24/1971 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

920 
E

 H
athaw

ay A
venue 

A
partm

ent 3 
B

ronson, F
L 

32621 

R
P

T
 

51574 
12/09/2013 

M
urphy, M

eghan 
N

icole 
04/23/1992 

W
inn D

ixie 
14600 P

alm
 B

each B
lvd 

F
t M

yers, F
L 

33905 

R
P

T
 

51575 
12/09/2013 

Lisojo, V
anessa 

A
ndrea 

02/01/1 995 
O

ther 
W

inter P
ark T

ech-A
valon 

C
am

pus 
14343 Lake U

nderhill R
d 

O
rlando, F

L 32828 

R
P

T
 

51576 
12/09/2013 

Lugo, K
aren P

 
10/27/1992 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 207 W

averly W
ay 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33756 

R
P

T
 

51577 
12/09/2013 

N
asw

orthy, R
ebecca 

A
nn 

12/10/1968 
W

algreens 
115 N

 Law
rence B

lvd 
K

eystone H
eights, F

L 
32656 

R
P

T
 

51578 
12/09/2013 

K
rause, P

aula A
 

07/11/1969 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 712 N
ew

 Jersey S
treet 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33756 

R
P

T
 

51579 
12/09/2013 

M
oreno, Lori Lam

bert 
07/06/1973 

O
ther 

C
ollins C

areer C
enter 

10810 W
inged F

oot 
T

errace 
B

radenton, F
L 

34202 

R
P

T
 

51580 
12/09/2013 

P
rajapati, R

avish 
10/06/1986 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

175 S
r 312, S

t A
ugustine, 

F
l? 

S
aint A

ugustine, F
L 

32080 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.pdx1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivisIon of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 : R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

S
o
r
t
 O
r
d
e
r
:
 O

riginal License D
ate 

Page 
2
4
 o
f
3
ô
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51581 
12/10/2013 

K
aroub, Lauren A

 
06/1 3/1 987 

T
arget P

harm
acy 

4271 T
am

iam
i T

n 
S

 
V

enice, F
L 

34293 

R
P

T
 

51582 
12/10/2013 

O
scar, R

ichard 
08/22/1991 

O
ther 

M
cfatter T

echnical S
chool 

6309S
w

7T
h S

treet 
M

argate, F
L 

33068 

R
P

T
 

51583 
12/10/2013 

M
ccoy, W

illiam
 

M
urray 

05/02/1987 
15043 S

 D
ixie H

w
y 

P
alm

etto B
ay, F

L 
33176 

R
P

T
 

51584 
12/10/2013 

Large, G
abrielle 

M
arie 

07/19/1994 
T

arget C
orporation 

1004 M
onticello B

lvd N
 

S
t. P

etersburg, F
L 

33703 

R
P

T
 

51585 
12/10/2013 

P
equeno, T

hom
as 

John 
03/13/1984 

T
arget P

harm
acy 

292628 A
ve. 

N
. 

S
t. P

etersburg, F
L 

33703 

R
P

T
 

51586 
12/1 0/2013 

Lam
oute, S

am
onia 

Lashae 
03/09/1991 

T
otal 

C
are M

edical, 
Inc 

365 H
inson C

ircle 
H

avana, F
L 

32333 

R
P

T
 

51587 
12/10/2013 

A
lIen, C

helsea D
ene 

02/15/1991 
1606 S

honnora D
r 

G
otha, F

L 
34734 

R
P

T
 

51588 
12/10/2013 

H
all, Jazz'M

en 
P

eacolia 
11/23/1992 

937 G
rand S

t 
O

rlando, F
L 

32805 

R
P

T
 

51589 
12/10/2013 

D
ukes, Latitia 

R
ochelle 

06/09/1993 
1200 S

.W
. 3R

d S
t A

pt #1 
H

om
estead, 

F
L 

33030 

R
P

T
 

51590 
12/10/2013 

S
torch, A

llina M
arie 

01/06/1994 
O

ther 
S

anford-B
row

n Institute 
Jacksonville 

393 B
lairm

ore B
lvd E

ast 
O

range P
ark, F

L 
32073 

R
P

T
 

51591 
12/10/2013 

O
'N

eill, E
m

ily T
aylor 

06/29/1 991 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

630 A
tlantic B

lvd 
N

eptune B
each, F

L 
32266 

R
P

T
 

51592 
12/10/2013 

Juresic, S
anny 

02/24/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5323 S

um
m

it Lake D
r. 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32258 

R
P

T
 

51593 
12/10/2013 

Jones, M
egum

i 
04/02/1 980 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1594 G

reen M
oss Lane 

O
range P

ark, F
L 

32065 

R
P

T
 

51594 
12/10/2013 

M
enegia, Y

anet 
08/18/1983 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

8200N
w

 10T
h S

t U
nit 

13 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33126 

R
P

T
 

51595 
12/10/2013 

W
oof, A

shley N
icole 

07/20/1992 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

112 K
ennedy A

ve 
Interlachen, 

F
L 

32148 

R
P

T
 

51596 
12/10/2013 

P
ederson, V

elislava 
V

asileva 
06/29/1973 

T
arget C

orporation 
32003200 N

 F
ederal H

w
y 

F
ort Laudedale, F

L 
33306 

R
P

T
 

51597 
12/10/2013 

P
yle, A

bbra C
hristine 

03/30/1991 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida- 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

2832 M
yra S

treet 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32205 

R
P

T
 

51598 
12/10/2013 

N
guyen, A

shley 
08/21/1991 

W
algreens 

125 E
ast M

ain S
treet 

A
popka, F

L 
32703 

R
P

T
 

51599 
12/10/2013 

P
arra, A

driana 
05/22/1988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6424 W
ilshire D

r 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33615 

R
P

T
 

51600 
12/10/2013 

T
ories, T

racy M
cclain 

08/28/1971 
O

ther 
M

idlands T
echnical 

C
ollege 

6204 B
enjam

im
 

R
d 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33634 

R
P

T
 

51601 
12/10/2013 

K
urland, Jennifer A

nn 
09/06/1976 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
915 S

outh U
s H

ighw
ay 

1 
V

ero B
each, F

L 
32962 

R
P

T
 

51602 
12/10/2013 

Lounsbury, A
lm

a 
E

laine 
02/08/1 988 

W
algreens 

378 C
ordova A

ve 
D

eleon S
prings, F

L 
32724 

R
P

T
 

51603 
12/10/2013 

P
adgett, T

renton 
P

ayne 
10/07/1993 

3959 H
w

y 273 
G

raceville, F
L 

32440 

R
P

T
 

51604 
12/10/2013 

M
ena, Irm

a 
12/18/1979 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

2l4O
S

w
4T

h C
ourt 

C
ape C

oral, 
F

L 
33991 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision 

M
edical Q

uoliiy A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 : R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

P
age 25 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51605 
12/10/2013 

H
am

, E
rica 

04/19/1992 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
27571 R

iverbank D
rive 

B
onita S

prings, F
L 

34134 

R
P

T
 

51606 
12/10/2013 

C
ueves, Luz T

halia 
01/07/1993 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

418 S
e 21S

t S
treet 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 33990 

R
P

T
 

51607 
12/10/2013 

K
ey, D

am
eyca K

ionis 
11/29/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
2584 T

roubador S
t. 

O
rlando, F

L 
32839 

R
P

T
 

51608 
12110/2013 

K
illenbec, N

ichole Lila 
11/06/1981 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
1136 C

astlew
ood T

errace 
A

pt 202 
C

asselberry, F
L 

32707 

R
P

T
 

51609 
12/10/2013 

P
alacios, 

K
ristine 

02/15/1989 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
551 

S
 D

avis S
t 

Labelle, F
L 

33935 

R
P

T
 

51610 
12/10/2013 

Levin, Lisa M
 

08/28/1963 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 6916 N
. G

len A
venue 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33614 

R
P

T
 

51611 
12/10/2013 

M
itchnick, H

ope 
S

haron 
09/20/1958 

W
algreens 

3063 N
orthlake 

B
lvd 

P
alm

 B
each G

ardens, F
L 

33403 

R
P

T
 

51612 
12/10/2013 

W
atts, M

aria Lyn 
10/15/1975 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1596 H
ighw

ay A
lA

 
S

atellite B
each, F

L 
32937 

R
P

T
 

51613 
12/10/2013 

M
allard, K

aci Lynn 
12/08/1994 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7614 Leafy F
orest W

ay 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32277 

R
P

T
 

51614 
12/10/2013 

P
eterson, S

haundra 
Leann 

10/31/1985 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

1861 
N

w
 46T

h A
ve A

pt 
312E

 
Lauderhill, F

L 
33313 

R
P

T
 

51615 
12/10/2013 

C
eballos, A

ngel 
E

duardo 
08/17/1993 

W
algreens 

3063 M
andolin D

rive 
K

issim
m

ee, F
L 

34744 

R
P

T
 

51616 
12/10/2013 

B
row

n, B
arbara 

A
nnette 

06/21/1967 
1700 S

. F
ederal H

ighw
ay 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
3316 

R
P

T
 

51617 
12/10/2013 

C
lausen, C

ole C
alvin 

12/08/1 994 
T

arget C
orporation 

4450 P
ark S

treet 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33709 

R
P

T
 

51618 
12/10/2013 

F
rancis, M

aurice 
B

ornw
ell 

12/16/1972 
O

ther 
B

arry U
niversity/A

ce 
Institute F

or T
raining &

 
P

rofessional D
ev. 

168 4958 168T
h A

ve 
M

iram
ar, F

L 
33027 

R
P

T
 

51619 
12/10/2013 

D
aniel, C

rystal G
ayle 

10/17/1983 
76253 Longleaf Loop 

Y
ulee, F

L 
32097 

R
P

T
 

51620 
12/10/2013 

B
racetti, E

m
m

anuel 
A

lexander 
01/11/1994 

O
ther 

W
estside T

ech 
6171 A

rundel D
r. 

O
rlando, F

L 
32808 

R
P

T
 

51621 
12/10/2013 

B
urke, Ladell 

06/18/1972 
9998 F

ront B
each R

d 
P

anam
a C

ity B
each, F

L 
32407 

R
P

T
 

51622 
12/10/2013 

G
uerrero, C

laudia 
12/17/1986 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

14601 S
w

 16 S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33175 

R
P

T
 

51623 
12/10/2013 

D
avis, R

egina L 
10/24/1973 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2020 N
. 7T

h. A
ve. 

P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32503 

R
P

T
 

51624 
12/10/2013 

D
erkovitz, R

achel 
Lynn 

06/18/1988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3506 N

 Lecanto H
w

y 
B

everly H
ills, F

L 
34465 

R
P

T
 

51625 
12/10/2013 

H
ennen, Jodi A

nn 
11/30/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

13700 S
utton P

ark D
r N

 

A
pt 825 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32224 

R
P

T
 

51626 
12/10/2013 

C
renshaw

, B
ryant 

C
hristopher 

04/27/1992 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

264 W
ilson G

reen B
lvd 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32305 

R
P

T
 

51627 
12/11/2013 

D
esai, F

algunibahen 
D

 

10/17/1969 
W

algreens 
4340 S

outhflorida A
venue 

Lakeland, F
L 

33813 

F
lorida 

D
epartm

ent of H
ealth 

pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5 15:01/22/2014 23:41:15 
O

N
D

 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

S
ort O

rder: 
License D

ate 

P
age 26 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_licp_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 23:41:15 
O

N
D

 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51628 
12/11/2013 

B
igelow

, D
errik N

els 
07/11/1988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

13T
h 1621 S

w
 13T

h 
S

treet 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32608 

R
P

T
 

51629 
12/11/2013 

F
ielder, C

harles L 
09/11/1964 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 2319 M

agnolia A
venue 

S
effner, F

L 
33584 

R
P

T
 

51630 
12/11/2013 

A
njos, M

ileneA
ndreia 

11/10/1990 
1149 B

aycove Ln 
Lutz, F

L 
33549 

R
P

T
 

51631 
12/11/2013 

P
rice, M

olly Jane 
08/17/1994 

W
algreens 

2705 H
ighw

ay 44 W
est 

Inverness, 
F

L 
34453 

R
P

T
 

51632 
12/11/2013 

M
onsanto, Lois 

01/21/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2252 S

andridge C
ircle 

E
ustis, F

L 
32726 

R
P

T
 

51633 
12/11/2013 

C
urran, Jennifer F

aith 
10/14/1983 

A
dventist H

ealth 
S

ystem
 

582 M
onroe R

d 
S

anford, F
L 

32771 

R
P

T
 

51634 
12/11/2013 

A
lm

eida, C
laudia 

03/18/1992 
W

algreens 
21358 S

w
 112 A

ve A
pt 

101 

M
iam

i, F
L 33189 

R
P

T
 

51635 
12/11/2013 

E
verett, T

anisha 
LaS

hay 
05/09/1 988 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
843 O

ld S
till R

d 
W

oodbine, 
G

A
 

31569 

R
P

T
 

51636 
12/11/2013 

C
araballo, M

ichelle 
04/24/1993 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

12103 S
w

 213T
h T

err 
M

iam
i, F

L 33177 

R
P

T
 

51637 
12/11/2013 

B
aker, A

m
anda M

aie 
01/17/1994 

4210S
r64 E

ast 
B

radenton, F
L 

34208 

R
P

T
 

51638 
12/11/2013 

C
aw

thra, M
arina 

C
atherine 

03/04/1 992 
T

equesta D
rugs Inc 

6080 E
agles N

est D
rive 

Jupiter, F
L 

33458 

R
P

T
 

51639 
12/11/2013 

C
hristian, T

iffany A
nn 

05/27/1994 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

9799 S
e 308T

h T
errace 

R
d. 

A
ltoona, F

L 
32702 

R
P

T
 

51640 
12/11/2013 

B
oles, D

evontae 
A

ntonio 
07/12/1993 

O
ther 

M
cfatter T

echnical C
enter 

1800 S
 U

niversity D
rive 

M
iram

ar, F
L 

33025 

R
P

T
 

51641 
12/11/2013 

H
ew

lett, S
ally W

ynn 
12/08/1962 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
19034 B

ruce B
 D

ow
ns 

B
lvd. 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33647 

R
P

T
 

51642 
12/11/2013 

T
oten, Janet G

race 
04/07/1959 

O
m

inicare, Inc. 
11102 S

um
m

er D
rive 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33624 

R
P

T
 

51643 
12/11/2013 

M
oham

m
ed, Leah 

03/23/1 988 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4550 Lyons R

oad 
P

om
pano, F

L 33066 

R
P

T
 

51644 
12/11/2013 

Ibrahim
ovic, M

erim
a 

10/26/1979 
7999 9T

h S
t. N

. 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33702 

R
P

T
 

51645 
12/11/2013 

M
artinez, A

nthony 
M

ichael 
06/11/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

808 N
. F

ranklin S
t. U

nit 
1414 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33602 

R
P

T
 

51646 
12/11/2013 

Jacques-M
ichel, A

nne 
09/05/1979 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

129 N
w

 117 S
treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33168 

R
P

T
 

51647 
12/11/2013 

D
u T

oit, N
icole 

M
argaret 

06/15/1989 
W

algreens 
10899 B

aym
eadow

s R
d 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32256 

R
P

T
 

51648 
12/11/2013 

P
endray, A

m
anda 

B
rianne 

07/13/1992 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
1390 G

reen V
aller C

ir A
pt 

1104 
N

aples, F
L 

34104 

R
P

T
 

51649 
12/11/2013 

R
odriguez, Judith 

01/22/1974 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

106 P
once D

e Leon B
lvd 

M
iam

i, F
L 33135 

R
P

T
 

51650 
12/11/2013 

Lopez, Lisa M
arie 

08/01/1984 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

136 T
eakw

ood D
r 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34743 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uolity A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 27 of 36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
P

T
 

51651 
12/11/2013 

W
endland, Julie A

nn 
02/05/1964 

O
ther 

M
ilw

aukee A
rea T

echnical 
C

ollege 
10400 75T

h S
t. 

K
enosha, W

I 
53142 

R
P

T
 

51652 
12/11/2013 

R
ehm

an, N
ida 

07/12/1 991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
9940 Y

am
ato R

oad 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33498 

R
P

T
 

51653 
12/12/2013 

A
ycock, D

aniel Lee 
01/05/1993 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f W
est F

lorida 
742 O

verbrook D
rive 

F
ort W

alton B
each, F

L 
32547 

R
P

T
 

51654 
12/12/2013 

A
m

broise, Joanne 
N

atalie 
04/25/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1690 S
outh F

ederal H
w

y 
D

elray B
each, F

L 
33483 

R
P

T
 

51655 
12/12/2013 

F
lanienco-M

endoza, 
F

ernanda C
 

07/21/1989 
W

algreens 
501 

E
 S

heridan S
treet 

D
ania, F

L 33004 

R
P

T
 

51656 
12/12/2013 

C
all, S

tarr A
ngel 

12/28/1988 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
97659765 C

obbletone 
C

reek D
r. 

B
oynton B

each, F
L 

33472 

R
P

T
 

51657 
12/12/2013 

V
ernio, Izabelle 

06/1 2/1 983 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

4100 E
astridge C

ircle 
D

eerfield B
each, F

L 
33064 

R
P

T
 

51658 
12/12/2013 

C
olem

an, D
avida 

A
real 

11/18/1993 
Jacksonville Job C

orps 
C

enter 
2678 S

t Johns B
luff R

oad 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32246 

R
P

T
 

51659 
12/12/2013 

H
urst, A

lyssa 
A

lexandra 
12/1811990 

O
ther 

A
ventura H

ospital 
13620 N

orth M
iam

i A
ve. 

M
iam

i, F
L 33168 

R
P

T
 

51660 
12/12/2013 

G
reco, N

icole O
livia 

03/25/1994 
O

ther 
M

k E
ducation 

6047 A
bigail A

ve 
N

orth P
ort, F

L 
34287 

R
P

T
 

51661 
12/12/2013 

B
ozarth, C

onnie S
ue 

01/01/1962 
670 M

arsh Landing 
P

arkw
ay 

Jacksonville B
each, F

L 
32250 

R
P

T
 

51662 
12/12/2013 

S
eaton, C

raig 
D

uvaughn 
07/08/1 988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

65 C
vs P

harm
acy E

ast 
M

ain S
treet 

A
popka, F

L 
32703 

R
P

T
 

51663 
12/12/2013 

F
ollese, A

driana 
06/11/1975 

4600 S
um

rrierlin R
d 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33919 

R
P

T
 

51664 
12/12/2013 

C
orrea, M

ichelle 
D

olores 
02/05/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7705 S
w

 127 C
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33183 

R
P

T
 

51665 
12/12/2013 

H
ester, Joshua B

lake 
01/29/1992 

O
ther 

W
hitney M

. Y
oung Job 

C
orps 

1818 B
rum

an T
errace 

M
elbourne, F

L 
32935 

R
P

T
 

51666 
12/12/2013 

H
ernandez, B

renda 
03/20/1995 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

220 10T
h S

t S
.E

 
N

aples, F
L 

34117 

R
P

T
 

51667 
12/12/2013 

R
ussell, M

arie 
D

orothy 
03/07/1981 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

11496 S
w

 51 
C

ircle 
O

cala, F
L 

34476 

R
P

T
 

51668 
12/12/2013 

G
ray, N

ikia D
 

12/16/1974 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
3820 Losco R

d. A
pt.124 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32257 

R
P

T
 

51669 
12/12/2013 

C
om

as, Laura 
12/31/1955 

12811 G
lades R

d 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33498 

R
P

T
 

51670 
12/12/2013 

H
uff, B

rett Joseph 
03/15/1994 

W
al-M

art 
3993 T

yrone B
lvd S

uite 
700 

S
t. P

etersburg, F
L 

33709 

R
P

T
 

51671 
12/12/2013 

S
errano, Jorge 

03/14/1952 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2803 A
rlington S

treet 
O

rlando, F
L 

32805 

R
P

T
 

51672 
12/12/2013 

G
arm

a D
iaz, M

ayelin 
07/13/1977 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
C

enters 
2560 S

w
 122 C

t. 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33175 



of 
M

edical Q
ualily A

ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 : R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 28 of 36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 23:41:15 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
P

T
 

51673 
12/12/2013 

F
arooq, M

uham
m

ad 
04/14/1984 

W
alm

art A
nd S

am
'S

 

U
m

ar 
C

lub P
harm

acies 
8557 C

rooked T
ree D

r 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32256 

R
P

T
 

51674 
12/12/2013 

R
uffin, A

ntonio 
01/07/1987 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
4714 N

orth H
abana A

ve 
A

pt604 
T

am
pa, 

F
L 

33614 

R
P

T
 

51675 
12/12/2013 

K
nese, Jessica D

aw
n 

05/10/1982 
W

inn D
ixie 

10393- S
e H

ighw
ay 

44 1-27 
B

elleview
, F

L 
34420 

R
P

T
 

51676 
12/12/2013 

P
etit-F

rere, E
dith 

A
gatha 

07/21/1975 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

2908 N
e 8T

h T
errace A

pt 
203 

W
ilton M

anors, F
L 

33334 

R
P

T
 

51677 
12/12/2013 

C
alvo, K

arm
a 

01/05/1974 
4148 S

w
 13 S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33134 

R
P

T
 

51678 
12/12/2013 

C
errat, Joanne 

09/07/1942 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
114 Lapasada C

ircle W
. 

P
onte V

edra B
each, F

L 
32082 

R
P

T
 

51679 
12/12/2013 

B
esaly, S

arah 
04/26/1993 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
455 ,A

lt 19 #185 
P

alm
 H

arbor, F
L 

34683 

R
P

T
 

51680 
12/12/2013 

O
daiyar, K

eisha S
 

05/26/1 992 
18950 S

w
 54T

h P
1 

S
outhw

est R
anches, F

L 
33332 

R
P

T
 

51681 
12/12/2013 

H
aIl, C

arl A
 Jr 

01/0311991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3035 A

palachee 
P

arkw
ay, 

T
alla 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32301 

R
P

T
 

51682 
12/13/2013 

C
raw

ford, K
um

iko 
K

oyanagi 
03/02/1 963 

1190 W
ashington C

ircle 
U

nitJ 
H

om
estead, F

L 
33034 

R
P

T
 

51683 
12/13/2013 

D
andridge, Leigh 

H
ousem

an 
06/19/1979 

O
ther 

E
d2G

o/U
nf 

287 287 H
untington 

S
hortcut R

d. 
C

rescent C
ity, F

L 
32112 

R
P

T
 

51684 
12/13/2013 

M
cdaniel, M

arissa 
Lynn 

08/21/1989 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3372 P
enny Lane 

M
iddleburg, F

L 
32068 

R
P

T
 

51685 
12/13/2013 

M
iller, Jackie Lynn 

01/02/1 990 
311 M

em
orial B

lvd 
Lakeland, F

L 
33801 

R
P

T
 

51686 
12/13/2013 

M
endez, M

arisela 
07/29/1 990 

929 A
pril H

ills B
lvd 

Lady Lake, F
L 

32159 

R
P

T
 

51687 
12/13/2013 

K
ostm

an, Jessica K
ay 

05/12/1990 
400 C

olony B
lvd 

T
he V

illages, F
L 

32162 

R
P

T
 

51688 
12/13/2013 

Jones, A
rthur Lee 

08/01/1 975 
O

ther 
F

ortis Institute 
2841 5 O

akland F
orest 

D
r A

pt.203 
O

akland P
ark, F

L 
33309 

R
P

T
 

51689 
12/13/2013 

K
olm

etz, M
egan 

A
rielle 

07/09/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
2855 H

olly R
oad 

P
once D

e Leon, F
L 

32455 

R
P

T
 

51690 
12/13/2013 

M
uri, B

arbara Jean 
12/19/1959 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida 

O
f P

harm
acy 

772 July C
ircle 

N
 F

t M
yers, F

L 
33903 

R
P

T
 

51691 
12/13/2013 

P
atten, B

rent W
ayne 

09/19/1994 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
l300A

palachee P
arkw

ay 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32301 

R
P

T
 

51692 
12/13/2013 

T
hrne, Illonis 

P
 

11/08/1991 
Lively T

ech C
enter 

2074 M
idyette R

d #1111 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32301 

R
P

T
 

51693 
12/13/2013 

M
artin, A

ustin 
C

handler 
10/18/1992 

S
hands Jacksonville 

M
edical C

enter 
1760 R

iver H
ills D

rive 
F

lem
ing Island, F

L 
32003 

R
P

T
 

51694 
12/1312013 

B
axter, A

lexandra 
N

icole 
04/29/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

128 H
ibiscus D

r 
F

ort M
yers B

each, F
L 

33931 



D
ivision of 

M
edicol Q

ualify A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 

1
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
4
 
1
1
:
4
1
:
3
7
P
M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 29 of36 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxlS

l 5:01/2212014 23:41:15 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
P

T
 

51695 
12/13/2013 

A
ntunes, D

ena M
arie 

07/11/1966 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
215 Jacaranda B

lvd. 
V

enice, F
L 

34292 

R
P

T
 

51696 
12/13/2013 

T
irado, K

atrinah Ivette 
10/17/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

617 V
ia T

unis D
r 

P
unta G

orda, 
F

L 
33950 

R
P

T
 

51697 
12/13/2013 

C
astillo, T

oby Lisa 
10/10/1961 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

4723 N
w

 36T
h A

venue 
C

ape C
oral, F

L 
33993 

R
P

T
 

51698 
12/13/2013 

S
olm

o, A
lexandra 

M
ichel 

10/07/1995 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

1700 M
orning S

un Lane 
N

aples, F
L 

34119 

, 

R
P

T
 

51699 
12/16/2013 

S
m

ith, C
ody B

arrett 
03/09/1994 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
6313 B

uster D
rive 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 
33619 

R
P

T
 

51700 
12/16/2013 

T
revino, M

ichelle 
12/03/1993 

H
aw

a P
harm

acy 
646 S

 D
illard S

t 
W

inter G
arden, F

L 34747 

R
P

T
 

51701 
12/16/2013 

Q
uinones, M

aryshelly 
07/14/1987 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f F
lorida - 

C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
3425 S

w
 2N

d A
ve A

pt # 
150 

G
ainesville, F

L 
32607 

R
P

T
 

51702 
12/16/2013 

R
agan, T

eala C
auley 

01/26/1976 'S
 P

harm
acy, 

LIc 
132 S

tate H
w

y 20 E
ast 

F
reeport, F

L 32439 

R
P

T
 

51703 
12/16/2013 

V
anderhoof, M

ichelle 
Lee 

05/15/1995 
P

ublix S
uper M

arket, 
Inc. 

11948 B
laze Lane 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

34654 

R
P

T
 

51704 
12/16/2013 

S
hazer, A

shley 
11/12/1982 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 3111 

E
. 9T

h A
venue 

T
am

pa, F
L 33605 

R
P

T
 

51705 
12/16/2013 

S
im

ilien, T
helm

a 
06/29/1988 

O
ther 

B
arry U

niversity 
1281 

N
w

 117 S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33167 

R
P

T
 

51706 
12/16/2013 

Lenza, M
onica 

A
m

anda 
02/20/1967 

9682 F
ountaibleau B

lv 
#405 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33172 

R
P

T
 

51707 
12/16/2013 

Jim
enez H

iedra, 
R

aydel E
raldo 

03/11/1970 
8260 S

w
 32N

d T
errace 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 

R
P

T
 

51708 
12/16/2013 

M
unoz D

iaz, S
onia 

05/14/1969 
163 N

w
 59T

h A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33126 

R
P

T
 

51709 
12/16/2013 

C
apote P

iedra, E
len 

12/26/1979 
O

ther 
E

verest Institute 
15101 S

w
 306T

h S
t 

H
om

estead, F
L 

33033 

R
P

T
 

51710 
12/16/2013 

M
aldonado, Jose 

F
ranciso 

08/09/1 974 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

446 W
est O

akridge R
oad 

A
pt #110 

O
rlando, F

L 
32809 

R
P

T
 

51711 
12/16/2013 

M
artinez, E

van N
oel 

12/19/1989 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

R
P

T
 

51712 
12/16/2013 

S
edano, S

helby Jeau 
01/19/1996 

O
ther 

A
tlantic T

echnical C
enter 

24 C
t 9200 N

w
 24 C

t 
S

unrise, F
L 

33322 

R
P

T
 

51713 
12/16/2013 

D
ibella, A

lexis 
M

onteleone 
10/28/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

611 
S

 H
ow

ard A
ve 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 33606 

R
P

T
 

51714 
12/17/2013 

H
idalgo, V

ivianna 
A

lejandra 
11/04/1991 

W
al-M

art 
4649 72N

d C
t E

 
B

radenton, F
L 

34203 

R
P

T
 

51715 
12/17/2013 

A
nferova, Inga 

10/15/1975 
O

ther 
U

f C
ollege O

f P
harm

acy 
1652 M

ary B
eth D

r 1652 
M

ary B
eth D

rive 
M

iddleburg, F
L 

32068 

R
P

T
 

51716 
12/17/2013 

R
itchie, M

elissa Lynn 
08/31/1979 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
3757 P

ark Lane V
illas 

R
oad 

Lake P
ark, F

L 
33403 

R
P

T
 

51717 
12/17/2013 

D
o, K

orena M
akayla 

08/12/1993 
O

ther 
S

anford-B
row

n Institute 
Jacksonville 

12116 B
lackfoot T

rail 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32223 

,________ 

R
P

T
 

51718 
12/17/2013 

T
urner, A

ntonio 
M

aurice 
08/09/1959 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
405 P

rescott S
t. 

E
ustis, F

L 
32726 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualily A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 3
0
 o
f
3
6
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/2212014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

51719 
12/17/2013 

B
akhtiar, R

oza 
04/18/1972 

O
ther 

C
erritos C

ollage 
112 O

ak G
rove C

ir 
Lake M

ary, FL
 32746 

R
P

T
 

51720 
12/17/2013 

W
illis, P

aul A
 

02/01/1 995 
O
t
h
e
r
 

B
arry U

niversity A
ce 

Institute 
4376 S

w
 Lagrange S

t 
P

ort S
t. Lucie, F

L 
34953 

R
P

T
 

51721 
12/17/2013 

W
alters, A

ndrea K
 

08/24/1980 
O

ther 
E

verest T
am

pa 
9611 M

ontague S
t 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33626 

R
P

T
 

51722 
12/17/2013 

S
utliff, R

yan G
riffe 

09/18/1990 
K

ash N
' K

arry Food 
S

tores, Inc 
3527 39T

h Lane S
outh 

A
pt F

 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 

33711 

R
P

T
 

51723 
12/17/2013 

H
inson, K

ayla Lashay 
12/26/1988 

O
ther 

M
ci Institute O

f 
T

echnology 
1630 W

est 
13T

h S
treet 

R
iviera B

each, F
L 

33404 

R
P

T
 

51724 
12/17/2013 

A
lford, K

rista P
aige 

07/05/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7112 W

est H
ighw

ay 98 
P

anam
a C

ity B
each, F

L 
32407 

R
P

T
 

51725 
12/17/2013 

B
oady, P

atricia-A
nn 

O
livia 

09/03/1 990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
665 S

e K
arrigan T

err 
P

ort S
aint Lucie, F

L 
34983 

R
P

T
 

51726 
12/17/2013 

A
bdul-S

alaam
, 

H
arneed lsrnail 

03115/1985 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5905 U

s H
ighw

ay 301 
S

outh 
R

iverview
, F

L 
33569 

R
P

T
 

51727 
12/17/2013 

N
ichols, Jeana M

arie 
08/27/1987 

O
ther 

F
ortis Institute 

90 Isle O
f V

enice D
r#7 

F
ort Lauderdale, F

L 
33301 

R
P

T
 

51728 
12/17/2013 

P
oirier, S

tacie Lee 
02/19/1990 

9801 Lake C
hrise Lane 

P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

34668 

R
P

T
 

51729 
12/17/2013 

B
aIl, Justin M

artel 
09/23/1990 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
5473 N

w
 S

aint Jam
es D

r 
P

ort S
aint Lucie, F

L 
34983 

R
P

T
 

51730 
12/17/2013 

A
m

ador, A
m

anda 
C

arol 
10/22/1988 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

790 P
latt R

d 
N

aples, 
F

L 
34120 

R
P

T
 

51731 
12/17/2013 

E
spino, E

lena H
ilaria 

11/04/1993 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
1463 H

eim
an A

ve 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33905 

R
P

T
 

51732 
12/17/2013 

H
iggs, Jade 

09/06/1991 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
1376 M

arshgrass C
t 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32218 

R
P

T
 

51733 
12/17/2013 

W
issert, K

atherine 
Jeanne 

10/01/1990 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
3601 W

 N
orth A

 S
t 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33609 

R
P

T
 

51734 
12/17/2013 

D
esim

one, Jessica 
Leigh 

06/02/1 991 
W

algreens 
96T

h 8636 96T
h A

ve 
V

ero B
each, F

L 
32976 

R
P

T
 

51735 
12/17/2013 

M
oreno, P

atricienn 
K

aponson 
05/03/1955 

O
ther 

U
niversity O

f W
est F

lorida 
433 E

lcino D
rive 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32526 

R
P

T
 

51736 
12/17/2013 

Jefferies, D
em

i A
dina 

03/28/1990 
T

arget P
harm

acy 
6010 D

rexel Lane 1115 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33919 

R
P

T
 

51737 
12/17/2013 

F
ranco, E

sm
eralda 

02/25/1991 
O

ther 
P

harm
 C

on 
213 N

 6T
h S

treet 
Im

m
okalee, F

L 
34142 

R
P

T
 

51738 
12/17/2013 

Irizarry, O
rlando 

01/22/1993 
W

algreens 
11283 

N
 W

illiam
s S

t 
D

unnelon, F
L 

34432 

R
P

T
 

51739 
12117/2013 

S
t F

leur, R
ichenel 

09/16/1982 
O

ther 
M

edvance Institute 
421 N

w
 42N

d C
ourt A

pt 
204 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33064 

R
P

T
 

51740 
12/17/2013 

W
ainm

an, Lyndsay 
R

ae 
11/15/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1940 N
w

 2N
d A

ve 
G

ainesville, F
L 

32603 

R
P

T
 

51741 
12/17/2013 

M
arquez-A

rroyo, 
R

ebecca Lannae 
04/30/1 991 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

13300 A
talantic B

lvd 
#1519 

Jacksonville, 
F

L 
32225 



of 
M

edical Q
uaW

y A
ssurance 

M
O

JS
 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2208 
: R

egistered Pharm
acy T

echnician 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 31 of 36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

R
P

T
 

51742 
12/17/2013 

B
utterfield, D

aw
n 

M
arie 

08/29/1980 
O

ther 
U

nited S
tates A

ir F
orce 

5935 P
into Lane 

O
rlando, F

L 
32822 

R
P

T
 

51743 
12/17/2013 

A
m

aya, R
itva 

H
annella 

04/10/1968 
205 S

w
 S

tarfish A
ve. 

P
ort S

aint Lucie, F
L 

34984 

R
P

T
 

51744 
12/17/2013 

G
om

es, Jared M
arion 

12/29/1989 
7621 S

outhern B
rook 

B
end #304 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33635 

R
P

T
 

51745 
12117/2013 

D
onato, M

ilagros 
A

ngelica 
12/05/1995 

12 N
orthfleet Lane 

K
issim

rnee, F
L 

34758 

R
P

T
 

51746 
12/17/2013 

A
lberson, K

im
berly 

M
ilstead 

05/27/1 975 
1865 W

ells R
d A

pt 0-226 
O

range P
ark, F

L 
32073 

R
P

T
 

51747 
12/17/2013 

H
airsine, P

riscilla 
09/11/1970 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

223 A
ncona S

t 
F

ort M
yers, F

L 
33913 

R
P

T
 

51748 
12/18/2013 

Lafargue P
erez, 

A
ilenis 

03/17/1987 
O

ther 
P

rofessional T
raining 

C
enters 

8002 S
w

 149T
h A

venue 
A

pt B
-302 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33193 

R
P

T
 

51749 
12/18/2013 

Jones, Leronda 
01/03/1980 

O
ther 

S
anford B

row
n Institute 

T
am

pa 
4307 D

eleuil A
ve 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33610 

R
P

T
 

51750 
12/18/2013 

T
aylor, D

ebra Jean 
04/16/1985 

W
algreens 

4860 D
onald R

oss R
d 

P
alm

 B
each G

ardens, F
L 

33418 

R
P

T
 

51751 
12/18/2013 

B
ienaim

e, N
erlande 

C
harles 

08/1 7/1 969 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3327 G
ondolier W

ay 
Lake W

orth, F
L 

33462 

R
P

T
 

51752 
12/18/2013 

C
alvi R

odriguez, 
D

ainelis 
10/15/1983 

O
ther 

P
rofessional T

raining 
C

enters 
4631 S

w
 132N

d A
venue 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33175 

R
P

T
 

51753 
12/18/2013 

R
ego, A

m
anda M

rs 
09/05/1981 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

151 34 V
erona A

ve A
pt. A

 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33760 

R
P

T
 

51754 
12/18/2013 

T
ennison, K

endall 
E

m
anuel 

10/02/1 989 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
14355 W

est N
ew

berry 
R

oad 
Jonesville, F

L 32669 

R
P

T
 

51755 
12/18/2013 

S
heffield, K

im
berly 

A
nn 

08/14/1981 
O

ther 
P

harm
acy T

echnicians 
U

niversity 
355W

 P
earl S

t 
B

arlow
, F

L 
33830 

R
P

T
 

51756 
12/18/2013 

R
odriguez R

odriguez, 
A

nam
arys 

09/1 5/1 971 
F

lorida E
ducation Instutue 

3840 S
w

 102 A
ve #D

205 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33165 

R
P

T
 

51757 
12/18/2013 

R
encurrell A

guilar, 
Luzday 

05/29/1982 
F

lorida E
ducation Institute 

9500 S
w

 36T
h S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33165 

R
P

T
 

51758 
12/18/2013 

S
ainristil, M

arie 
D

om
inique 

10/28/1981 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3930 C
rystal Lake D

r A
pt 

212 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 

33064 

R
P

T
 

51759 
12/18/2013 

R
ose, A

m
ber N

icole 
04/02/1 991 

R
asm

ussen C
ollege - 

P
rot R

ichey 
4158 M

ariner B
lvd 

S
pring H

ill, 
F

L 
34609 

R
P

T
 

51760 
12/19/2013 

K
reisler, H

ow
ard 

S
am

uel 
02/02/1 992 

686 G
lades R

d 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33431 

R
P

T
 

51761 
12/19/2013 

P
atel, K

rupaliben R
 

06/06/1989 
W

al-M
art 

6500 Lake G
ray B

lvd, A
pt 

# 409 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32244 



O
lvislon 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

Pvt 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Processed: 
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
1
4
 
1
1
:
4
1
:
3
7
P
M
 

P
a
g
e
 3
2
 o
f
 3
6
 

R
a
n
k
 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51762 
12/19/2013 

M
anuel, M

ichael 
H

am
ilton 

0411 6/1 993 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

3425 N
w

 44T
h S

t 
F

ort Lauderdale, 
F

L 
33309 

R
P

T
 

51763 
12/19/2013 

M
eria, D

aniela 
11/21/1992 

O
ther 

H
eritage Institute 

760 14T
h S

t N
e 

N
aples, F

L 
34120 

R
P

T
 

51764 
12/19/2013 

P
ickett, M

elanie A
nn 

01/07/1990 
O

ther 
H

eritage Institute 
10353 Lew

ana D
r 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32257 

R
P

T
 

51765 
12/19/2013 

P
atel, P

reya Jayesh 
05/10/1995 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

554 E
 N

ine M
ile R

d 
P

ensacola, F
L 

32514 

R
P

T
 

51766 
12/19/2013 

K
arg, A

m
y M

arie 
02/25/1981 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51767 
12/19/2013 

M
assey, A

im
ee 

10/17/1973 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

R
P

T
 

51768 
12/19/2013 

A
m

anda Lee 
01/25/1988 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51769 
12/19/2013 

M
artin, B

ethany 
01/13/1990 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1813 O
ak P

ond S
treet 

R
uskin, F

L 33570 

R
P

T
 

51770 
12/19/2013 

H
ill, Lauren 

J M
s 

11/26/1971 
O

ther 
U

ltim
ate M

edical A
cadem

y 19086 S
e S

outhgate D
r 

T
equesta, F

L 
33469 

R
P

T
 

51771 
12/19/2013 

Lyke, A
shley K

ay 
07/17/1989 

260 U
.S

. 
1 

T
equesta, F

L 33469 

R
P

T
 

51772 
12/19/2013 

F
aust, E

ric 0 
09/18/1966 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

810 S
e 20T

h C
t 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33990 

R
P

T
 

51773 
12/19/2013 

M
atthew

, T
iffany 

10/06/1989 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

A
ngelica 

R
P

T
 

51774 
12/19/2013 

S
m

ith, A
m

ber Jael 
06/06/1986 

C
oncorde C

areer 
Institute 

C
ci -T

am
pa 

5704 B
ratton D

r 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33617 

R
P

T
 

51775 
12/19/2013 

A
nderson, S

him
ara 

11/01/1980 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

S
haree 

R
P

T
 

51776 
12f19f2013 

M
edina, H

eidi M
arie 

01/04/1991 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outhpark C
ir 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51777 
12/19/2013 

P
ineda, 

M
oises D

avid 
09/26/1987 

9380 S
w

 56T
h S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33165 

R
P

T
 

51778 
12/19/2013 

M
orales G

arcia, 
10/16/1986 

2131 
N

w
 S

ooth R
iver D

r 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33125 

C
arlos E

nrique 

R
P

T
 

51779 
12/19/2013 

C
elestine, E

va 
12/09/1 977 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7442 39T
h P

lace N
orth 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33709 

R
P

T
 

51780 
12/19/2013 

A
lexandre, Jam

es 
03I24/1986 

O
ther 

F
ortis Institute 

3556 N
w

 34T
h S

t 
Lauderdale Lakes, F

L 
33309 

R
P

T
 

51781 
12/19/2013 

V
erdejo-C

ruz, E
ileen 

11/10/1965 
725 C

reekw
ater T

errace 
Lake M

ary, F
L 

32746 
2
1
1
 

R
P

T
 

51782 
12/19/2013 

D
arnidaux, D

om
inique 

05/09/1985 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
11234 N

w
 46T

h D
rive 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 33076 

C
hristina 

R
P

T
 

51783 
12/19/2013 

B
acon, A

m
anda Linn 

09/10/1993 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
12015 Little R

d 
H

udson, F
L 

34667 

R
P

T
 

51784 
12/19/2013 

A
aron, C

hanel 
10/23/1990 

O
ther 

E
verest U

niversity 
6231 N

w
 14T

h 
C

t 
S

unrise, F
L 

33313 

A
nam

arie 

R
P

T
 

51785 
12/19/2013 

B
enjam

in, R
ebecca 

06/20/1971 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
11500 R

idge R
oad 

N
ew

 P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

K
a
t
h
l
e
e
n
 

3
4
6
5
4
 

R
P

T
 

51786 
12/19/2013 

C
iceron, M

arie 
12/24/1974 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

14425 N
e 6 A

venue A
pt. 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33161 
#
2
0
2
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rptjic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 23:41:15 
O

N
D

 





D
ivision 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
S

ort O
rder: O

riginal License D
ate 

P
age 34 of36 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
P

T
 

51810 
12/23/2013 

S
aincim

uste, K
etlie 

11/15/1982 
O

ther 
S

teps C
orp 

7891 Johnson S
treet A

pt 
202 

P
em

broke P
ines, 

F
L 

33024 
R

P
T

 
51811 

12/26/2013 
P

aulo, A
rnold Jr 

08/04/1991 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
4780 N

orth K
ings H

ighw
ay 

F
ort P

ierce, F
L 

34951 

R
P

T
 

51812 
12/26/2013 

M
onroe, A

m
ber 

M
ichelle 

06/22/1995 
O

ther 
U

niversity O
f F

lorida - 
C

ollege O
f P

harm
acy 

13672 233R
d R

d 
Live O

ak, F
L 32060 

R
P

T
 

51813 
12/26/2013 

Jackson, V
eronica 

02/05/1969 
A

guilas International 
M

edical Institute 
1111011110 C

ausew
ay 

B
lvd 

B
randon, F

L 
33511 

R
P

T
 

51814 
12/26/2013 

P
ornpa, Y

illiam
 

10/02/1986 
A

guilas International 
M

edical Institute 
7702 R

ivergate D
r A

pt 801 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33619 

R
P

T
 

51815 
12/26/2013 

K
angethe, S

usan 
M

utboni 
12/26/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1325 V
erona S

treet 
D

aytona B
each, F

L 
32114 

R
P

T
 

51816 
12/26/2013 

P
atel, R

oshni B
 

02/01/1995 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
37317 H

ighridge D
r. 

D
ade C

ity, F
L 33525 

R
P

T
 

51817 
12/26/2013 

N
appo, M

arialidia 
12/04/1991 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

6196 Lynn Lake D
rive 

S
outh A

pt: 
B

 
S

t.P
etersburg, F

L 
33712 

R
P

T
 

51818 
12/26/2013 

Lantigua, T
am

el 
M

arkel 
07/1711986 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51819 
12/26/2013 

R
ood, C

ara 
01/11/1988 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

7325 S
tate R

oad 54 
N

ew
 P

ort R
ichey, F

L 
34653 

R
P

T
 

51820 
12/26/2013 

S
tetzel, H

eylin R
aquel 

06/04/1980 
F

lorida E
ducation Institute 

185 N
w

 13 A
ve #1332 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33125 
R

P
T

 
51821 

12/26/2013 
R

ossano, K
atie Lynn 

01/12/1995 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
6579 K

ings R
d 

K
eystone H

eights, F
L 

32656 

R
P

T
 

51822 
12/26/2013 

P
accione, Linda A

 
06/08/1965 

O
ther 

S
outheasern C

ollege 
2249 S

w
 C

ree R
oad 

P
ort S

aint Lucie, 
F

L 
34953 

R
P

T
 

51823 
12/26/2013 

W
oods, N

icholas 
T

im
othy 

10/17/1986 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
209 S

outh T
em

ple A
ve 

S
tarke, F

L 
32091 

R
P

T
 

51824 
12/26/2013 

T
ojar, Joseph D

aniel 
12/10/1991 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
12231 E

ast C
olonial D

r 
O

rlando, F
L 32826 

R
P

T
 

51825 
12/26/2013 

W
elch, Laura K

risten 
06/21/1 985 

6314 N
 9T

h A
venue 

P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32504 
R

P
T

 
51826 

12/26/2013 
R

udolph, D
iane C

arol 
10/18/1963 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
2040 58T

h A
venue 

V
ero B

each, F
L 

32966 

R
P

T
 

51827 
12/26/2013 

M
oorer, D

estany 
D

eO
ndra 

09/12/1989 
1000 

N
 6T

h A
venue 

P
ensacola, 

F
L 

32501 

R
P

T
 

51828 
12/26/2013 

A
nderson, Jean M

arie 
10/17/1972 

O
ther 

P
ostgraduate H

ealthcare 
E

ducation,LIc 
N

ot P
racticing 

In F
lorida 

P
 0 B

ox 6320 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32314-6320 

R
P

T
 

51829 
12/26/2013 

R
ossi, B

rittany 
Leanne 

07/19/1989 
O

ther 
F

lorida Institute O
f 

T
echnology 

5 A
tlantic D

rive 
P

alm
 C

oast, F
L 

32137 

R
P

T
 

51830 
12/26/2013 

S
ise, O

m
ar Jam

al 
02/09/1991 

W
algreens 

8337 S
outh P

ark C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51831 
12/26/2013 

V
alencia, Jonathan 

10/24/1 985 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 



D
ivision 

M
edical Q

uaifly A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:41:37P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 3
5
 of 3

6
 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41:15 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
P

T
 

51832 
12/26/2013 

R
odriguez, M

agela 
D

e Lam
ercede 

09/24/1980 
W

inn D
ixie 

11252 N
w

6 S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33172 

R
P

T
 

51833 
12/26/2013 

V
asquez, T

atiana 
A

lexandria 
01/1 8/1 994 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
84 T

uscan W
ay 

S
aint A

ugustine, F
L 

32092 

R
P

T
 

51834 
12/26/2013 

R
utkow

ski-S
tarr, 

K
athy E

lizabeth 
05/15/1969 

W
algreens 

5094 N
el22N

d B
lvd 

O
xford, F

L 
34484 

R
P

T
 

51835 
12/26/2013 

T
urner, N

ashaiya 
S

hacoyia 
12/20/1993 

Jacksonville Job C
orps 

C
enter 

5020 72N
d 

S
t. E

. 
B

radenton, F
L 34203 

R
P

T
 

51836 
12/26/2013 

T
race, Lisa A

nn 
06/14/1994 

O
ther 

O
range C

ounty P
ublic 

S
chools, W

inter P
ark 

T
ech 

309 B
reckenridge C

ircle 
S

e 

P
alm

 B
ay, F

L 32909 

R
P

T
 

51837 
12/26/2013 

S
loan, S

tacey M
arie 

08/09/1980 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
11527 A

shton F
ield A

ve 
R

iverview
, F

L 
33579 

R
P

T
 

51838 
12/27/2013 

V
ecchio, F

lorencia 
D

afne 
05/11/1992 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

3406 3406 3R
d A

ve W
est 

B
radenton, F

L 
34205 

R
P

T
 

51839 
12/27/2013 

S
heffield, N

icole 
E

lyse 
06/02/1988 

W
alm

art A
nd 'S

 
C

lub P
harm

acies 
9890 H

utchinson P
ark 

D
rive 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32225 

R
P

T
 

51840 
12/27/2013 

R
iviere, M

ireille 
09/05/1968 

O
ther 

S
outheastern C

ollege 
2500 S

pringdale B
lvd A

pt# 
G

-303 
P

alm
 

S
pring, F

L 
33461 

R
P

T
 

51841 
12/27/2013 

R
om

an, C
aleb 

04/11/1986 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
5606 P

ost O
ak B

lvd 
W

esley C
hapel, F

L 
33543 

- R
P

T
 

51842 
12/27/2013 

P
atel, 

R
oshni K

aushik 
11/12/1993 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

2806 B
arret A

ve 
P

lant C
ity, F

L 33566 

R
P

T
 

51843 
12/27/2013 

R
ivery, S

ivels 
07/30/1973 

C
vs C

arem
ark 

1013 1013 N
w

 129 
P

1 

1013 N
w

 129 F
l 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33182 

- R
P

T
 

51844 
12/27/2013 

W
aIthall, A

nnie 
E

lizabeth 
09/05/1 990 

W
alm

art A
nd S

am
'S

 
C

lub P
harm

acies 
1226 H

ighw
ay 331 S

outh 
D

efuniak S
prings, F

L 
32433 

R
P

T
 

51845 
12/27/2013 

R
ossm

an, E
rin N

icole 
03/15/1990 

P
ublix S

uper M
arket, 

Inc. 
4550 G

atew
ay B

lvd. 
W

esley C
hapel, F

L 
33544 

R
P

T
 

51846 
12/27/2013 

T
elfair, Iris Louise 

05/13/1 992 
O

ther 
E

verest U
niversity 

Jacksonville 
2285 W

est 16T
h S

treet 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32209 

R
P

T
 

51847 
12/27/2013 

S
later, H

eather A
nne 

08/03/1988 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, 
F

L 
32819 

R
P

T
 

51848 
12/27/2013 

T
im

m
ons, Jevon 

T
erryll 

06/20/1 992 
W

algreens 
8337 S

outh P
ark C

ircle 
O

rlando, F
L 

32819 

R
P

T
 

51849 
12/27/2013 

W
ilson, M

ichelle N
 C

 
01/27/1 995 

O
ther 

M
iam

i Lakes E
ducational 

C
enter 

F
lorida A

 M
 U

niversity 
C

ropper H
all 112-70177 

T
allahassee, F

L 
32307 

R
P

T
 

51850 
12/27/2013 

R
odriguez D

iaz, 
JorgeL 

03/26/1980 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
7825 N

e B
ayshore C

t 
A

pto 105 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33138 

R
P

T
 

51851 
12/27/2013 

V
allejo, D

iana 
02/28/1978 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

19721 N
w

48 A
venue 

M
iam

i G
ardens, F

L 
33055 

R
P

T
 

51852 
12/27/2013 

N
egron, D

ebrann 
12/07/1 971 

W
algreens 

805 H
avendale B

lvd 
W

inter H
aven, F

L 
33881 

H
ialeah, F

L 
33013 

R
P

T
 

51853 
12/30/2013 

V
eigas, N

athalee 
08/28/1989 

O
ther 

E
verest Institute 

460 
E

. 23 S
treet A

pt. 111 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:41:37P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2208 

: R
egistered Pharm

acy T
echnician 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
S

ort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 36 of36 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

T
otal R

ecords: 
790 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:41 :15 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 
R

P
T

 
51854 

12/30/2013 
S

heposh, D
oreen 

M
arie 

08/14/1953 
H

enry F
ord C

om
m

 
C

ollege 
13956T

h S
treet N

W
 

W
inter H

aven, F
L 

33881 

R
P

T
 

51855 
12/30/2013 

W
atson, H

olly N
icole 

12/26/1986 
T

he P
recription P

lace 
1337 U

s H
w

y 90 W
est 

D
efuniak S

prings, 
F

L 
32433 

R
P

T
 

51856 
12/31/2013 

S
heats, D

akota Jc 
11/20/1992 

W
alm

art A
nd S

am
'S

 
C

lub P
harm

acies 
17000 T

am
iam

i T
rail 

N
orth P

ort, F
L 

34287 

R
P

T
 

51857 
12/31/2013 

B
ras, G

lennisha Jem
a 

07/2711992 
O

ther 
Jacksonville Job C

orps 
2148 C

rosshair C
ircle 

O
rlando, F

L 32837 
R

P
T

 
51858 

12/31/2013 
G

rantham
, T

raci A
nn 

03/15/1964 
C

vs C
arem

ark 
575 W

est lndiantow
n 

R
d 

Jupiter, F
L 

33458 
R

P
T

 
51859 

12/31/2013 
C

leaveland, R
ichard 

Jeffery 
01/05/1965 

O
ther 

U
ltim

ate M
edical A

cadem
y 3033 S

outh B
uckley P

oint 
Inverness, F

L 34450 

R
P

T
 

51860 
12/31/2013 

T
aylor, K

yndall 
C

hekia 
06/15/1988 

V
irginia C

ollege - 
P

ensacola 
700W

 T
rum

an A
ve A

pt 
A

l 
1 

P
ensacola, F

L 
32505 

R
P

T
 

51861 
12/31/2013 

A
kuoko-S

arpong, 
A

w
o 

10/10/1 977 
N

orthern V
irginia C

om
m

. 
C

oil. 
15821 C

anoe C
reek D

r 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32218 

R
P

T
 

51862 
12/31/2013 

G
ordon, A

shley M
arie 

11/13/1984 
C

oncorde C
areer Institue - 5116 S

pringw
ood D

r. 
T

am
pa 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33624 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2203 

: C
onsultant Pharm

acist 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal License D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Processed: 1/22/2014 

11:46:38P
M

 
P

age 
1 of 

I 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
U

 
7354 

11/15/2013 
R

am
saroop, M

arisa 
A

nn 
16414 S

w
 1S

t S
treet 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33027 

P
U

 
7355 

11/15/2013 
B

row
n, D

orothy 
C

assandra 
2235 N

w
 142 W

ay 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

33028 
P

U
 

7356 
11/18/2013 

B
everly, A

m
anda 

Louise 
23230 S

telling A
ve 

P
ort C

harlotte, F
L 

33980 

P
U

 
7357 

11/19/2013 
R

aczka, R
ichard 

Joseph 
1004 S

w
 4T

h P
lace 

C
ape C

oral, F
L 

33991 

P
u 

7358 
11/19/2013 

P
arker, W

illiam
 C

ecil 
11505 B

lue C
rane S

treet 
R

iverview
, F

L 
33569 

7359 
11/19/2013 

Lam
, B

randee 
C

ecelia 
841 

N
e 98 S

treet 
M

iam
i S

hores, 
F

L 
33138 

pu 
7360 

11/19/2013 
B

yers, C
ourtneyL 

5011 W
iles R

d #206 
C

oconut C
reek, F

L 
33073 

P
u 

7361 
11/25/2013 

S
w

eet, 
R

agan 
M

ichelle 
3244 A

ddison Lane 
T

allahassee, F
L 

32317 

7362 
12/02/2013 

H
ough, M

ary C
 

03/1 8/1 974 
101 M

ill H
ollow

 D
rive 

C
raw

fordville, F
L 

32327 
7363 

12/09/2013 
H

ickm
an, Lauren 

121 B
reakers D

r A
pt 134 

M
yrtle B

each, S
C

 
29579 

P
U

 
7364 

12/10/2013 
P

un, C
hris B

rune 
08/31/1 957 

59 C
athedral A

venue 
F

lorham
 P

ark, N
J 

07932 
P

U
 

7365 
12/12/2013 

G
ilzene, T

enille 
D

'A
ndrea 

3760 Inverrary D
r#2E

 
Lauderhill, F

L 
33319 

7366 
12/18/2013 

W
ood, S

uzette C
lair 

3971 W
ild Lim

e Lane 
C

oral S
prings, 

F
L 

33065 
P

U
 

7367 
12/30/2013 

E
strada, Juan 

E
duardo 

6279 W
est 15 C

ourt 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33012 

P
U

 
7368 

12/30/2013 
D

im
arco, S

alvatore 
S

teven 
16744 S

w
 10T

h S
t 

P
em

broke P
ines, F

L 
33027 

P
U

 
7369 

12/30/2013 
B

utt, Jim
m

y 
C

hie-Y
oung 

03/17/1986 
5000 W

est 
O

akland P
ark 

B
lvd 

F
t Lauderdale, F

L 
33313 

T
otal R

ecords: 
16 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/22/2014 23:46:30 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2204 

: N
uclear Pharm

acist 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Processed: 1/22/2014 

11:49:29P
M

 
P

age 
of I 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

T
otal R

ecords: 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt.jic.p_dxI5l 5: 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

ualify A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Page 

I of9 
Processed: 1/22/2014 

11:50:15P
M

 

R
ank 

L
ic N

br 
Issue D

ate 
Licensee N

am
e 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
L A

ddress 
P

L Location 

P
H

 
27189 

11/01/2013 
H

ealthy Living D
etox 

LIc 

250 T
helm

a A
venue 

Jupiter, F
L 

33458 

P
H

 
27190 

11/01/2013 
M

em
orial H

ealth C
are 

S
ystem

-T
alent A

cqui 
2261 

N
. U

niversity D
rive 

S
uite 

02 
P

em
broke P

ines, 
F

L 
33024 

P
H

 
27191 

11/01/2013 
P

alm
G

arden0f 
O

cala, LIc 
0S

w
27T

hA
ve 

O
cala,F

L 
34474 

P
H

 
27192 

11/01/2013 
P

roact P
harm

acy 
S

ervices, Inc 
1226 U

s H
w

y 
11 

G
ouverneur, N

Y
 

13642 

P
H

 
27193 

11/01/2013 
D

estrehan D
rugs Inc. 

3001 O
rm

ond B
lvd S

te A
 

D
estrehan, LA

 
70047 

P
H

 
27194 

11/04/2013 
S

um
m

erton D
rugs 

C
om

pounding A
nd 

D
ispensa 

115 B
 M

ain S
treet 

S
um

m
erton, S

C
 

29148 

P
H

 
27195 

11/05/2013 
O

shun P
harm

acy 
D

iscount Inc 
1554W

68T
h S

t 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33014 

P
H

 
27196 

11/05/2013 
A

tm
 P

harm
acy Inc 

5757S
W

8S
treet#117 

M
iam

i,F
L 

33144 

P
H

 
27197 

11/05/2013 
J &

 S
 P

harm
acy A

nd 
D

iscount, Inc 
4920 E

ast 4T
h A

venue 
H

ialeah, F
L 

33013 

P
H

 
27198 

11/06/2013 
F

lorida H
ospital 

H
om

e Infusion, Lip 
11461 

U
.S

. H
w

y 301 S
uite 

105 
T

honotosassa, F
L 

33592 

P
H

 
27199 

11/06/2013 
P

harm
acy C

are 
C

enter 
7413 M

aim
i Lakes D

rive 
M

iam
i Lakes, F

L 
33014 

P
H

 
27200 

11/06/2013 
P

oinciana M
edical 

C
enter, 

Inc. 

325 C
ypress P

arkw
ay 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34758 

P
H

 
27201 

11/06/2013 
N

orth B
eaches 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
1510 P

enm
an R

d 
Jacksonville B

each, F
L 

32250 

P
H

 
27202 

11/06/2013 
S

outh B
row

ard 
H

ospital D
istrict 

3700 Johnson S
treet 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33021 

P
H

 
27203 

11/06/2013 
M

ain A
venue 

P
harm

acy 

1094 A
 M

ain A
ve 

C
lifton, N

J 
07011 

P
H

 
27204 

11/06/2013 
H

om
echoice 

P
artners, Inc 

426W
. 2N

d A
venue 

A
lbany, G

A
 

31701 

P
H

 
27205 

11/06/2013 
C

larksvilie P
harm

acy 
I LIc 

801 
N

 2N
d S

t 
C

larksville, T
N

 
37040 

P
H

 
27206 

11/06/2013 
N

orth B
revard C

ounty 
H

ospital D
istrict 

951 
N

orth W
ashington 

A
ve 

T
itusville, F

L 
32796 

P
H

 
27207 

11/06/2013 
F

ountain P
ark 

P
harm

acy Inc 
1901 M

anhattan 
B

lvd 
B

uilding F
, S

uite 104 
H

arvey, LA
 

70058 

P
H

 
27208 

11/06/2013 
H

ope H
ospice &

 
C

om
m

unity S
ervices 

9470 H
ealth P

ark C
ircle 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33908 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxI5l5:0112212014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 



D
ivision oF

 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:50:15P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 2 of 9 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l5:01/22/2014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
27209 

11/07/2013 
F

ort M
yers K

idney 
C

enler, Llc 
14181 

S
. T

am
iam

i T
rail 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33912 

P
H

 
27210 

11/07/2013 
A

s P
harm

acy L.L.C
. 

11719 B
ee C

aves R
oad 

S
uite 201 

B
ee C

ave, T
X

 
78738 

P
H

 
27211 

11/08/2013 
A

g N
aples S

enior 
H

ousing 
I O

pco, Lic 
4750 A

ston G
ardens W

ay 
N

aples, 
F

L 34109 

P
H

 
27212 

11/08/2013 
P

alm
 G

arden O
f W

est 
P

alm
 B

each, LIc 
300 E

xecutive C
enter 

D
rive 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33401 
P

H
 

27213 
11/08/2013 

G
lobal M

edical E
quip 

&
 S

upplies 
922 20T

h S
t 

H
aleyville, A

L 35565 

P
H

 
27214 

11/12/2013 
G

enoa H
ealthcare O

f 
F

lorida, LIc 
5664 S

w
 60T

h A
venue 

S
uite 2A

 
O

cala, F
L 

34474 

P
H

 
27215 

11/12/2013 
R

idgeland A
llied 

P
harm

acy Inc 
804 W

est B
loom

ingdale 
A

ve 
B

randon, F
L 

33511 

P
H

 
27216 

11/12/2013 
W

est F
lorida- M

ht, LIc 
2901 W

 S
w

ann A
venue 

T
am

pa, F
L 33609 

P
H

 
27217 

11/12/2013 
W

est F
lorida- M

ht, LIc 
2901 W

 S
w

ann A
venue 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33609 
P

H
 

27218 
11/12/2013 iO

fP
ort 

S
t. Lucie, LIc 

1751 
H

illm
oorD

riveS
e 

P
ortS

aintLucie, F
L 

34952 
P

H
 

27219 
11/12/2013 

P
alm

 G
arden O

f V
ero 

B
each, LIc 

1755 37T
h S

treet 
V

ero B
each, F

L 
32960 

P
H

 
27220 

11/13/2013 
B

eacom
 P

harm
acy, 

Inc. 
752 W

est F
lagler S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 33130 

P
H

 
27221 

11/13/2013 
B

eacom
 P

harm
acy 

Inc. 
752 W

est F
lagler S

t 
M

iam
i, 

F
L 33130 

P
H

 
27222 

11/13/2013 
Liii P

harm
acy A

nd 
D

iscount LIc 
4869 N

w
 36T

h S
t 

M
iam

i S
prings, 

F
L 

33166 

P
H

 
27223 

11/13/2013 
Leal P

harm
acy LIc 

632 W
ashington A

ve 
H

om
estead, F

L 
33030 

P
H

 
27224 

11/13/2013 
S

outh B
row

ard 
H

ospital D
istrict 

1150 N
orth 35T

h A
venue 

S
uite 270 

H
ollyw

ood, 
F

L 
33021 

P
H

 
27225 

11/13/2013 
G

ulf M
edical S

ervices 
Inc 

6776 C
aroline S

t 
M

ilton, 
F

L 32570 

P
H

 
27226 

11/13/2013 
S

outh B
row

ard 
H

ospital D
istrict 

20801 B
iscayne B

lvd 
S

uite 200 
A

ventura, 
F

L 33180 

P
H

 
27227 

11/13/2013 
S

outh B
row

ard 
H

ospital D
istrict 

603 N
orth F

lam
ingo R

oad 
S

uite 157 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

33028 
P

H
 

27228 
11/13/2013 

S
outh B

row
ard 

H
ospital D

istrict 
801 

N
orth F

lam
ingo R

oad 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

33028 
P

H
 

27229 
11/13/2013 

P
eak R

x, Llc 
801 

S
 P

erry S
t S

uite 100 
C

astle R
ock, C

O
 

80104 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:50:15P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 
3 of9 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5 15:01/22/2014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

P
H

 
27230 

11/13/2013 
F

lorida H
ospital 

H
om

e Infusion, LIp 
556 F

lorida C
entral 

P
arkw

ay S
uite 1044 

Longw
ood, F

L 
32750 

P
H

 

' 

27231 
11/13/2013 

E
m

ilior 
P

harm
aceutical 

C
om

pounding, 
Inc 

2510 W
estchester A

ve 
S

te 207 
B

ronx, 
N

Y
 

10461 

P
H

 
27232 

11/13/2013 
C

k/K
c Inc. 

436 E
ast M

ain S
treet 

M
iddletow

n, P
A

 
17057 

P
H

 
27233 

11/13/2013 
M

anhattan B
each 

P
harm

acy Inc 
1224 A

ve U
 

B
rooklyn, N

Y
 

11229 

P
H

 
27234 

11/15/2013 
F

lorida H
ealth 

S
ciences C

enter 
10718 C

ountryw
ay B

lvd 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33626 

P
H

 
27235 

11/15/2013 
A

bbaspour Inc. 
7320 

E
. 82N

d S
treet 

Indianapolis, IN
 

46256 

P
H

 
27236 

11/18/2013 
B

lue M
oon P

harm
acy 

&
 D

iscount C
orp 

7884 N
w

 52 S
t 

D
oral, F

L 
33166 

P
H

 
27237 

11/18/2013 
C

enter F
or A

lcohol 
A

nd D
rug S

tudies, Inc 
3151 

P
rince D

rive 
Lake W

orth, F
L 

33461 

P
H

 
27238 

11/18/2013 
B

ioscrip Infusion 
S

ervices, LIc 
5912 B

reckenridge 
P

arkw
ay S

uite E
 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33610 

P
H

 
27239 

11/18/2013 
A

rriva M
edical, LIc 

500 E
agles Landing D

rive 
S

uite B
 

Lakeland, F
L 

33810 

P
H

 
27240 

11/19/2013 
O

pharm
a G

roup LIc 
4733 

V
V

. A
tlantic A

ve 
S

uite 2 
D

elray B
each, F

L 
33445 

P
H

 
27241 

11/19/2013 
O

pharm
a G

roup LIc 
4733W

. A
tlantic 

A
ve 

S
uite 2 

D
elray B

each, F
L 

33445 

P
H

 
27242 

11/19/2013 
P

alm
 G

arden O
f 

Jacksonville, LIc 
5725 S

pring P
ark R

oad 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32216 

P
H

 
27243 

11/19/2013 
Lillian P

harm
acy, Inc 

12831 
S

ixth S
treet 

Lillian, A
L 

36549 

P
H

 
27244 

11/19/2013 
H

ospice O
f N

orth 
E

ast F
lorida, Inc 

4266 S
unbeam

 R
oad 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32257 

P
H

 
27245 

11/21/2013 
U

niversity O
f M

iam
i 

3850 H
ollyw

ood B
lvd 

S
uite lB

 
H

ollyw
ood, F

L 
33021 

P
H

 
27246 

11/21/2013 
P

ublixS
uperM

arkets, 
Inc 

7524D
rP

hiIlipsB
Ivd 

O
rlando, F

L 
32819 

P
H

 
27247 

11/21/2013 
R

 &
 A

 G
upta LIc 

25444 S
r46 S

uite 3 
S

orrento, F
L 

32776 

P
H

 
27248 

11/21/2013 
S

urgery C
enter O

f 
N

orth M
iam

i, LIc 
585 N

W
 161 S

treet 
M

iam
i, F

L 33169 

P
H

 
27249 

11/21/2013 
C

oral S
prings P

olice 
D

ept H
um

ane U
nit 

4130H
w

 121 A
ve 

C
oral S

prings, F
L 

33065 

P
H

 
27250 

11/22/2013 
M

eds D
irect R

x O
f 

N
y, LIc 

882 3R
d A

ve 10T
h F

loor, 
S

uite 1000 
B

rooklyn, N
Y

 
11232 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:50:15P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 4 of 9 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 

B
irth D

ate 
E

D
U

 P
rovider 

E
D

U
 Institution 

P
1 A

ddress 
P

L Location 
P

H
 

27251 
11/26/2013 

R
em

ed P
harm

acy 
10163 S

 U
s 

H
w

y 
1 

P
ort S

aint Lucie, 
F

L 
34952-5610 

P
H

 
27252 

11/26/2013 
F

irst C
hoice 

P
harm

acy Inc 
5743 S

w
8 S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33144 

P
H

 
27253 

11/26/2013 
C

om
pound M

d Inc. 
10948 

N
 56T

h S
treet S

uite 
202 

T
em

ple T
errace, 

F
L 

33617 
P

H
 

27254 
11/26/2013 

S
arju G

roup LIc 
305 C

lyde M
orris B

lvd 
S

uite #200 
O

rm
ond B

each, F
L 

32174 

P
H

 
27255 

11/26/2013 
C

 &
 

M
 H

ealthpro LIc 
1530-B

 W
est V

ine S
treet 

K
issim

m
ee, F

L 
34741 

P
H

 
27256 

11/27/2013 
V

ista S
pecialty 

P
harm

acy 
235W

 H
w

y 50 
C

lerm
ont, F

L 
34711 

P
H

 
27257 

11/27/2013 
Q

uality R
x P

harm
a 

Inc 
1778W

 F
lagler S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33135 

P
H

 
27258 

11/27/2013 
R

om
at V

entures, 
Inc. 

166 
O

aks B
lvd. 

U
nit 9 

O
cala, 

F
L 

34473 

P
H

 
27259 

12/02/2013 
D

iabetes 
M

anagem
ent &

 
S

upplies 

10 C
om

m
erce C

t 
N

ew
 O

rleans, LA
 

70123 

P
H

 
27260 

12/03/2013 
S

tream
line LIc 

14965 O
ld S

t. A
ugustine 

R
d U

nit# 108 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32258 

P
H

 
27261 

12/03/2013 
C

arepoint H
ealthcare 

Lic 
911 

B
 N

 P
lum

 G
rove R

d 
S

chaum
burg, IL 

60173 

P
H

 
27262 

12/03/2013 
S

ky P
harm

acy A
nd 

D
iscount C

orp 
2414 S

heridan S
t 

H
ollyw

ood, F
L 

33020 

P
H

 
27263 

12/04/2013 
W

hite D
rug C

o. O
f 

Jam
estow

n Inc 
706 38T

h S
treet N

w
 U

nit 
D

ef 
F

argo, 
N

D
 

58102 

P
H

 
27264 

12/04/2013 
A

ccredo H
ealth 

G
roup, Inc. 

2825W
. P

erim
eter R

d S
te 

112 
Indianapolis, 

IN
 

46241 

P
H

 
27265 

12/04/2013 
N

oble H
ealth 

S
ervices, 

Inc. 
6040 larbell 

R
oad 

S
yracuse, N

Y
 

13206 

P
H

 
27266 

12/04/2013 
B

urm
ans P

harm
acy 

Inc 
3400 E

dgm
ont A

venue 
B

rookhaven, P
A

 
19015 

P
H

 
27267 

12/04/2013 
N

 
R

 M
 H

oldings Ltd. 
500 W

. M
anchester A

ve 
Los A

ngeles, C
A

 
90044 

P
H

 
27268 

12/04/2013 
H

enry F
ord P

harm
acy 

A
dvantage S

outhfield 
735 John 

R
 R

oad 
T

roy, 
M

l 48083 

P
H

 
27269 

12/05/2013 
S

t P
etersburg 

G
eneral H

ospital 
6500 38T

h A
venue N

orth 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33767 

P
H

 
27270 

12/05/2013 
M

adam
e R

x, LIc 
829 S

pruce S
treet S

uite 
100 

P
hiladelphia, P

A
 

19107 



D
ivision of 

M
edical 

A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:50:15P
M

 

C
 O

M
PA

S D
ataM

a rt R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

Page 5 of9 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
1515:O

1/22/2014 23:50:10 
O

N
D

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

P
H

 
27271 

12/05/2013 
M

edscript P
harm

acy 
14401 John H

um
phrey D

r 
O

rland P
ark, IL 

60462 

P
H

 
27272 

12/05/2013 
Livingston Infusion 
C

are, Inc 
603 M

ontrose A
venue 

S
outh P

lainfield, 
N

J 
07080 

P
H

 
27273 

12/06/2013 
W

al-M
art S

tores E
ast, 

Lp 
2677 R

oosevelt B
lvd 

Largo, 
F

L 33760 

P
H

 
27274 

12/06/2013 
W

al-M
art S

tores E
ast, 

Lp 
2171 

G
ulf T

o B
ay B

lvd 
C

learw
ater, F

L 
33765 

P
H

 
27275 

12/06/2013 
V

alued C
hoice 

P
harm

acy LIc 
5537 S

heldon R
oad S

uite 
Y

 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33615 

P
H

 
27276 

12/06/2013 
G

inger P
harm

acy 
739 S

outh O
range 

B
lossom

 T
rail 441 

A
popka, F

L 
32703 

P
H

 
27277 

12/10/2013 
U

nivv Inc 
2814 Lee B

lvd U
nit 

1 
Lehigh A

cres, F
L 

33971 

P
H

 
27278 

12/10/2013 
M

anatee P
harm

acy 
S

ervices, Inc 
3549 1S

t S
treet 

B
radenton, F

L 
34208 

P
H

 
27279 

12/11/2013 
C

om
pounding 

P
harm

acies O
f La, 

Inc 

128 C
urran Lane 

Lafayette, LA
 

70506 

P
H

 
27280 

12/11/2013 
Leehar D

istributors 
Inc 

701 E
m

erson R
d S

te 332 
S

aint Louis, M
O

 
63141 

P
H

 
27281 

12/11/2013 
P

pm
, LIc 

3300 N
w

 56T
h S

uite 101 
O

klahom
a C

ity, O
K

 
73112 

P
H

 
27282 

12/11/2013 
A

llcare P
c 

112 S
O

xley D
r 

Lyons, G
A

 
30436 

P
H

 
27283 

12/11/2013 
700 P

harm
acy LIc 

700 E
ast T

ow
nshipline 

R
oad S

uite LIl 
H

avertow
n, P

A
 

19083 

P
H

 
27284 

12/11/2013 
P

rem
ier P

harm
acy 

Labs, Inc 
8265 C

om
m

ercial W
ay 

W
eeki W

achee, F
L 

34613 

P
H

 
27285 

12/11/2013 
O

ncom
ed O

ncology 
P

harm
acy O

f 
P

hildelphia 

1553 C
hester P

ike S
uite 

206 
C

rum
 Lynne, P

A
 

19022 

P
H

 
27286 

12/11/2013 
H

ealthsouth 
R

ehabilitation 
H

ospital O
f L 

901 C
learw

ater Largo R
d 

N
orth 

Largo, F
L 

33770 

P
H

 
27287 

12/12/2013 
S

enior C
are 

P
harm

acy O
f F

lorida 
LIc 

4175S
. P

ipkin R
oad S

uite 
208 

Lakeland, F
L 

33811 

P
H

 
27288 

12/12/2013 
P

aram
ount P

harm
acy 

Lb 

7200 S
 180T

h S
t S

te 140 
T

ukw
ila, W

A
 

98188 

P
H

 
27289 

12/12/2013 
Lourdes D

ialysis, LIc 
7560 R

ed B
ug Lake R

d 
S

te 
1048 

O
viedo, 

F
L 

32765 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:50:15P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal License D

ate 

Page 6 of 9 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxI5l 5:01/22/2014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

P
H

 
27290 

12/12/2013 
P

harm
etrics 

S
peciality G

roup O
f 

T
am

pa 

11880 28T
h S

treet N
. 

S
uite 100-C

 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33716 

P
H

 
27291 

12/12/2013 
W

al-M
art S

tores E
ast, 

Lp 

1499 S
outh D

ixie H
w

y 
H

om
estead, F

L 
33033 

P
H

 
27292 

12/12/2013 
V

ista M
edical G

roup, 
LIc 

15511 N
 F

lorida A
ve S

uite 
C

-2 
T

am
pa, F

L 33613 

P
H

 
27293 

12/12/2013 
Julius H

oldings, LIc 
13244 T

elecom
 D

r. 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33637 

P
H

 
27294 

12/13/2013 
O

new
ay P

harm
acy, 

Inc 

823 N
.W

. 119T
h S

treet 
N

orth M
iam

i, F
L 

33168 

P
H

 
27295 

12/13/2013 
A

pothecary O
f 

H
arleysville, LIc 

345 M
ain S

t S
uite 7 

H
arleysville, 

P
A

 
19438 

P
H

 
27296 

12/13/2013 
R

ph P
artners, 

LIc 
6388 F

olsom
 D

r. 
B

eaum
ont, T

X
 

77706 

P
H

 
27297 

12/16/2013 
H

ealthsouth 
R

ehabilitation 
H

ospital O
f S

 

6400 E
dgelake D

rive 
S

arasota, 
F

L 34230 

P
H

 
27298 

12/16/2013 
H

ealth S
outh S

unrise 
R

ehabilitation H
osp 

4399 N
ob H

ill R
d 

S
unrise, F

L 
33351 

P
H

 
27299 

12/16/2013 
Insight 
P

harm
aceutical 

S
olutions Llc 

700 E
ast T

ow
nship Line 

R
oad S

uite LI2A
 

H
avertow

n, 
P

A
 

19083 

P
H

 
27300 

12/16/2013 
S

hriners H
ospitals 

F
or C

hildren 
12502 U

 S
 F

 P
ine D

rive 
T

am
pa, F

L 33612 

P
H

 
27301 

12/16/2013 
P

harm
acy E

xpress &
 

D
iscount, C

orp 
6350 S

w
 40 S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33155 

P
H

 
27302 

12/16/2013 
A

ntares P
harm

acy 
D

iscount Inc 
6741 C

oral W
ay S

uite 
52-53 

M
iam

i, 
F

L 
33155 

P
H

 
27303 

12/16/2013 
Legacy D

rugstore 
C

orp 
4700 N

w
 7 S

t #1 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33126 

P
H

 
27304 

12/18/2013 
E

xpress S
cripts 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
5701 E

. H
ilisborough 

A
venue S

uite 1300 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33610 

P
H

 
27305 

12/18/2013 
E

xpress S
cripts 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
8800 H

idden R
iver 

P
arkw

ay 
T

am
pa, 

F
L 

33637 

P
H

 
27306 

12/18/2013 
Liberty F

or A
ll 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
8444W

. O
akland P

ark 
B

lvd 
S

unrise, F
L 

33351 

P
H

 
27307 

12/18/2013 
B

ay C
ounty H

ealth 
S

ystem
, LIc 

801 
E

 6T
h S

t S
uite 604 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32401 

P
H

 
27308 

12/19/2013 
R

x C
are S

pecialty 
P

harm
acy, LIc 

2812W
. M

Ik B
lvd 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33607 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:50:15P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 

: Pharm
acy 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

Page 7 of 9 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_Iic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

P
H

 
27309 

12/19/2013 
R

ose N
ursing &

 

P
harm

acy S
ervices 

10008 P
ines B

lvd 
P

em
broke P

ines, F
L 

33024 

P
H

 
27310 

12/19/2013 
B

ay C
ounty H

ealth 
S

ystem
, LIc 

2421 T
hom

as D
rive 

P
anam

a C
ity B

each, F
L 

32408 

P
H

 
27311 

12/19/2013 
S

terile C
om

pounding 
P

harm
acy, LIc 

7381 
114T

h A
ve S

uite 405 
A

 
Largo, F

L 
33773 

P
H

 
27312 

12/19/2013 
A

 &
 K

 M
edical S

upply, 
Inc 

1450 E
m

erson A
venue 

S
uite 110 

M
aclean, V

A
 

22101 

P
H

 
27313 

12/19/2013 
P

harm
ex LIc. 

393 C
enter P

ointe C
ircle 

S
uite 1481 &

 1483 
A

ltam
onte S

prings, F
L 

32701 

P
H

 
27314 

12/19/2013 
J A

nd S
 R

x P
harm

acy 
Inc. 

1252 E
 H

illsborough A
ve 

T
am

pa, 
F

L 
33604 

P
H

 
27315 

12/19/2013 
M

aheem
 E

nterprise 
LIc 

5055 B
abcock S

treet S
uite 

#3 
P

alm
 B

ay, F
L 

32905 

P
H

 
27316 

12/19/2013 
A

dventist H
ealth 

S
ystem

/S
unbelt, Inc. 

894 E
ast A

ltam
onte D

r 
3R

d F
loor 

A
ltam

onte S
prings, F

L 
32701 

P
H

 
27317 

12/19/2013 
B

ay C
ounty H

ealth 
S

ystem
, LIc 

2420 Jenks A
ve 

P
anam

a C
ity, F

L 
32405 

P
H

 
27318 

12/19/2013 
E

kg P
harm

acy LIc 
7305 

N
 W

 36 S
treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33166 

P
H

 
27319 

12/19/2013 
G

ardens D
rugs, 

Inc 
2100 45T

h S
t #B

1 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33407 

P
H

 
27320 

12/20/2013 
G

m
h T

equesta 
H

oldings LIc 
701 O

ld D
ixie H

w
y 

T
equesta, F

L 33469 

P
H

 
27321 

12/20/2013 
R

icky'S
 P

harm
acy 

C
orp 

2324 S
w

67 A
ve 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33155 

P
H

 
27322 

12/23/2013 
P

ccc O
f V

olusia LIc 
1055 N

 D
ixie F

reew
ay 

N
ew

 S
m

yrna B
each, F

L 
32168 

P
H

 
27323 

12/23/2013 
A

rlington D
ialysis 

C
enter, LIc 

7645 M
errill R

d S
uite 204 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32277 

P
H

 
27324 

12/23/2013 
Interam

erican 
S

ervices C
orporation 

6801 N
w

77 A
ve S

uite 106 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33166 

P
H

 
27325 

12/23/2013 
F

lem
ing Island 

P
harm

acy Llc 
2349 V

illage S
quare 

P
arkw

ay U
nit # 106 

F
lem

ing Island, F
L 

32003 

P
H

 
27326 

12/23/2013 
A

dvance P
harm

acy 
S

ervice 
4726 N

. H
abana A

ve S
uite 

101 

T
am

pa, F
L 33614 

P
H

 
27327 

12/23/2013 
B

lue R
x P

harm
acy 

251 
P

ark B
lvd 

M
iam

i, F
L 33126 

P
H

 
27328 

12/23/2013 
W

est F
lorida-P

ph, LIc 
1501 P

asadena A
venue 

S
outh 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33707 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
s5urance 

Processed: 1/22/2014 
11:50:15P

M
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2205 : Pharm

acy 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal License D

ate 

Page 8 of9 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

- Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:50:10 

O
N

D
 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

P
H

 
27329 

12/26/2013 
S

t P
ete C

om
pounding 

P
harm

acy LIe 
3434 13T

h A
ve 

S
aint P

etersburg, 
F

L 
33713 

P
H

 
27330 

12/26/2013 
E

xpress P
harm

acy 
S

ince 2013, LIc 
1218 W

inter G
arden 

V
ineland R

d #112 
W

inter G
arden, F

L 
34787 

P
H

 
27331 

12/26/2013 
T

cs Labs L.L.C
 

4000 P
ark S

treet N
. 

S
aint P

etersburg, F
L 

33709 

P
H

 

. 

27332 
12/27/2013 

W
al-M

art S
tores E

ast, 
Lp 

3155 S
. F

ederal H
w

y 
D

eiray B
each, F

L 
33483 

P
H

 
27333 

12/27/2013 
B

oca R
aton 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
4802 N

w
 2 A

venue 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33431 

P
H

 
27334 

12/27/2013 
A

venix 
P

harm
aceuticals 

3200 N
 F

ederal H
'W

ay 
S

te 223 
B

oca R
aton, F

L 
33431 

P
H

 
27335 

12/27/2013 
G

alen O
f F

lorida Inc. 
6500 38T

h A
venue N

orth 
S

aint P
etersburg, F

L 
33710 

P
H

 
27336 

12/27/2013 
P

harm
acy 

C
orporation O

f 
A

m
erica 

7970 B
ay B

erry R
oad S

te 
4 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32256 

P
H

 
27337 

12/27/2013 
O

ption C
are 

E
nterprises, Inc. 

11341 Lindbergh B
lvd 

F
ort M

yers, F
L 

33913 

P
H

 
27338 

12/27/2013 
G

erm
aine P

harm
acy 

&
 C

om
pounding Inc 

2511 
S

w
an A

ve S
te 102 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33609 

P
H

 
27339 

12/27/2013 
U

nited P
harm

acy, 
LIc 

3951 N
orth H

averhill R
oad 

S
uite 120-121 

W
est P

alm
 B

each, F
L 

33417 

P
H

 
27340 

12/27/2013 
P

harm
erica D

rug 
S

ystem
s, LIe 

2200 T
all P

ines D
rive S

te 
118 

Largo, F
L 

33771 

P
H

 
27341 

12/27/2013 
P

harm
erica D

rug 
S

ystem
s, LIe 

775 B
ell R

oad 
S

arasota, F
L 34240 

P
H

 
27342 

12/27/2013 
P

harm
acy 

C
orporation O

f 
A

m
erica 

337 N
orthlake B

lvd 
A

ltam
onte S

prings, F
L 

32701 

P
H

 

P
H

 

27343 
12/30/2013 

K
idney K

are O
f 

Jacksonville, Inc. 
4168 S

outhpoint P
arkw

ay 
S

uite 103 
Jacksonville, F

L 
32216 

27344 
12/30/2013 

C
om

fort 
lv T

herapy, 
LIe 

1800 N
orthgate B

lvd S
te 

A
7 

S
arasota, F

L 
34234 

P
H

 
27345 

12/30/2013 
U

niversity O
f S

outh 
F

lorida B
oard O

f T
ru 

13330 U
sf Laurel D

rive 
S

uite 6116 
T

am
pa, F

L 
33612 

P
H

 
27346 

12/31/2013 
B

riovarx O
f Indiana, 

LIe 

1050 P
atrol R

oad 
Jeffersonville, IN

 
47130 



D
ivision of Q

ualify A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

M
 

N
ew

 L
icense R

eport for 2205 
: Pharm

acy 
Sort O

rder: O
riginal L

icense D
ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Processed: 1/22/2014 

11:50:15P
M

 
P

age 
9 of 9 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

T
otal R

ecords: 
158 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:O

1/22/2014 
23:50:10 

O
N

D
 



D
inN

ion of 
M

edical Q
uality A

ssurance 

P
rocessed: 

01/23/2014 
1:55:17PM

 

M
odifier E

ffective D
ate: 

11/01/2013 
- 

12/31/2013 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
Pharm

acy R
atio M

odifiers R
eport 

M
odifier 

E
ffct cIte 

M
od 

C
de 

Lic S
tatus 

Page 
1 of S 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
pkgjpl_lic.p_dx1549 

01/2312014 13:55:12 O
N

D
 

P
rof 

O
rganiaalion N

am
e 

cIB
A

 N
am

e 
R

ank 
License 8 

F
Ile C

 
I5oue O

Le 
M

ailing A
ddre5s 

P
hena 

C
ounty 

2205 
A

A
P

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20515 

12/02/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

171 W
E

S
1W

A
R

D
 D

R
IV

E
 

M
IA

M
I S

P
R

IN
G

S
, F

L 

33166 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
A

C
A

R
IA

H
E

A
LT

H
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, IN

C
 

A
C

A
R

IA
H

E
A

LT
H

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, IN
C

 
P

H
 

26727 
19690 

03/05/2013 
12)11/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
6923 LE

E
 V

IS
T

A
 B

LV
D

 S
U

IT
E

 300 O
R

LA
N

D
O

, 

F
L 32822 

407-903-1308 
O

range 

2205 
A

D
V

A
N

C
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 
P

H
 

27326 
20498 

12/23/2013 
11/26/2013 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
14457 C

O
R

O
N

A
D

O
 D

R
 

S
P

R
IN

G
 H

ILL, 
F

L 

34609 
H

errrando 

2205 
A

D
V

E
N

T
IS

T
 H

E
A

LT
H

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 
S

U
N

B
E

LT
 

H
E

A
LT

H
C

A
 

E
X

P
E

D
IE

N
 

R
X

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20542 

12)06/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

582 M
O

N
R

O
E

 
R

D
 S

T
E

 
1412 B

 S
A

N
F

O
R

D
, F

L 

32771 

S
em

inole 

2205 
A

D
V

E
N

T
IS

T
 H

E
A

LT
H

 
S

Y
S

T
E

M
/S

U
N

B
E

LT
, IN

C
 

F
LO

R
ID

A
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L C

E
N

T
R

A
L 

D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 C

E
 

20486 
11/22/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
601 E

A
S

T
 R

O
LLIN

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

O
R

LA
N

D
O

, F
L 

32803 
O

range 

2205 
A

D
V

E
N

T
IS

T
 H

E
A

LT
H

 
S

Y
S

T
E

M
/S

U
N

B
E

LT
, IN

C
. 

F
LO

R
ID

A
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L K

IS
S

IM
M

E
E

 

A
M

B
U

LA
T

O
R

Y
 

IN
 

20471 
11/18/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
2450 N

. O
R

A
N

G
E

 B
LO

S
S

O
M

 T
R

A
IL 

K
IS

S
IM

M
E

E
, F

L 34744 
O

sceola 

2205 
A

D
V

E
N

T
IS

T
 H

E
A

LT
H

 
S

Y
S

T
E

M
/S

U
N

B
E

LT
, IN

C
. 

F
LO

R
ID

A
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L A

LT
A

M
O

N
T

E
 

IB
U

LA
T

O
R

Y
IN

 
P

H
 

27316 
20472 

12/19/2013 
11118/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
601 R

O
LLIN

S
 S

T
 

O
R

LA
N

D
O

, F
L 32803 

O
range 

2205 
A

N
T

A
R

E
S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
 IN

C
 

A
N

T
A

R
E

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 IN
C

 
P

H
 

27302 
20514 

12/16/2013 
12/02/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
6741 C

O
R

A
L W

A
Y

 S
U

IT
E

 52-53 M
IA

M
I. F

L 

33155 

M
iam

I-D
ada 

2205 
A

R
R

IV
A

 M
E

D
IC

A
L, 

LLC
 

R
X

 C
A

R
E

 C
LU

B
 

P
H

 
27239 

20442 
11/18/2013 

11/08/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4252 N
W

 120T
H

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 
C

O
R

A
L S

P
R

IN
G

S
, 

F
L 33065 

B
row

ard 

2205 
A

R
T

V
u000 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 II, LLC
 

E
M

A
'S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20605 

12/30/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

1075 N
E

 84 S
T

 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33138 

M
iam

I-D
ade 

2205 
A

V
E

N
IX

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
E

U
T

IC
A

LS
 

A
V

E
N

IX
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

E
U

T
IC

A
LS

 
P

H
 

27334 
20543 

12/27/2013 
12/10/2013 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
3200 N

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L H
'W

A
Y

 S
T

E
 223 B

O
C

A
 

R
A

T
O

N
, F

L 33431 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
A

Z
U

L P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 C
O

R
P

 
A

Z
U

L P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 C
O

R
P

 
20571 

12/06/2013 
2P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

11338 
S

W
 184 S

treet M
IA

M
I, F

L 33157 
M

Iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
B

A
P

T
IS

T
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L 

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 
20468 

11/15/2013 
3P

rR
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
1000W

. M
O

R
E

N
O

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
P

E
N

S
A

C
O

LA
, F

L 
32501 

E
tcam

bia 

2205 
B

A
Y

C
A

R
E

 
H

O
M

E
 C

A
R

E
, IN

C
. 

B
A

Y
C

A
R

E
 H

O
M

E
 C

A
R

E
 

20608 
12/31(2013 

2P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
8452 118T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 N

O
R

T
H

 
LA

R
G

O
, F

L 

33773 

P
inellas 

2205 

2205 

B
LU

E
 R

X
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

B
O

C
A

 R
A

T
O

N
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

IN
C

 

B
LU

E
 R

X
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

S
P

E
C

IA
LT

t' C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 

P
H

 
27327 

20526 

20592 

12)23/2013 
12)03/2013 

12/2612013 

3P
T

R
 

3P
rR

 

C
LE

A
R

 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 

251 P
A

R
K

 B
LV

D
 

M
IA

M
I, F

L 33126 

4902 N
W

2 A
V

E
N

U
E

 B
O

C
A

 R
A

T
O

N
, F

L 33431 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
B

O
C

A
 

R
A

T
O

N
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, 

IN
C

 
S

P
E

C
IA

LT
'i C

A
R

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27333 

20487 
12/27/2013 

11/22/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4802 N
W

2 A
V

E
N

U
E

 B
O

C
A

 R
A

T
O

N
, F

L 33431 
P

alm
 

B
each 

2205 
B

O
C

A
 

R
A

T
O

N
 R

E
G

IO
N

A
L 

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L, 

IN
C

 

C
E

N
T

E
R

 
F

O
R

 H
E

M
A

T
O

LO
G

Y
 

O
N

C
O

LO
G

Y
 

1-I 
8177 

1232 
11/10/1982 

12/11/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

800 M
E

A
D

O
W

S
 R

D
 

B
O

C
A

 R
A

T
O

N
, F

L 33486 
(561) 855-4080 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
B

O
C

A
 R

A
T

O
N

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L H
O

S
P

IT
A

L, 

IN
C

 

P
H

 
30 

5 
12/11/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
800 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

 R
D

 
B

O
C

A
 R

A
T

O
N

, 
F

L 
33486-2304 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
C

 &
 M

 H
E

A
LT

H
P

R
O

 LLC
 

A
LL-S

C
R

IP
T

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27255 

20450 
11/26/2013 

11/12/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

8902 G
R

E
Y

 H
A

W
I<

 P
T

. O
R

LA
N

D
O

, F
L 32836 

O
range 

2205 
E

K
G

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 LLC
 

E
K

G
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 LLC

 
P

H
 

27318 
20523 

12/19/2013 
12/03/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
7305 N

W
36 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

M
IA

M
I, F

L 33166 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
E

M
E

R
G

E
N

C
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, IN
C

. 
E

M
E

R
G

E
N

C
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, 
IN

C
. 

20600 
12/30/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
4742 W

E
S

T
 F

LA
G

LE
R

 S
T

 
C

O
R

A
L G

A
B

LE
S

. 

F
L 33134 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
E

P
IC

 C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
LLC

 
E

P
IC

 C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 LLC
 

20443 
11/08/2613 

2P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
1002 N

W
 139T

H
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

 
P

E
M

B
R

O
K

E
 

P
IN

E
S

, F
L 33028 

B
row

ard 



O
lulsion of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

Pharm
acy R

atio M
odifiers R

eport 

M
odifier 

E
ffct D

Ie 
M

od C
de 

U
c S

tatus 
P

rof 
O

rganization N
am

e 
D

B
A

 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

5743 S
W

8 S
T

 
M

IA
M

I, 
F

L 33144 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
F

IR
S

T
 C

H
O

IC
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 IN
C

 
F

IR
S

T
 C

H
O

IC
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
IN

C
 

P
H

 
I 

27252 
20415 

20574 

11/2812013 

12/20/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

400 H
E

A
LT

H
 P

A
R

K
 B

LV
D

 
S

A
IN

T
 A

U
G

U
S

T
IN

E
 

/Johns 
2205 

F
LA

G
LE

R
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L IN

C
 

F
LA

G
LE

R
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20424 
12/23/2013 

11/05/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

B
E

A
C

, F
L 32086 

2349 V
ILLA

G
E

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 U

N
IT

 9 
C

lay 

2205 
F

LE
M

IN
G

 IS
LA

N
D

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 LLC
 

F
LE

M
IN

G
 IS

LA
N

D
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

LLC
 

P
H

 

20422 
11/05/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 

106 
F

LE
M

IN
G

 IS
LA

N
D

, F
L 32003 

4932 W
S

T
A

T
E

 R
O

A
D

 46 U
N

IT
 

1000 
S

em
inole 

2205 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
E

A
LT

H
 C

A
R

E
 P

LA
N

, IN
C

 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
E

A
LT

H
 C

A
R

E
 P

LA
N

S
 

20385 
11/06/2013 

11/06/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

S
A

N
F

O
R

D
, F

L 32771 

11461 U
.S

. H
V

W
 301 S

U
IT

E
 

105 
H

illsborough 

2205 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L H
O

M
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

, 

LLP
 

F
LO

R
ID

A
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L H

O
M

E
 IN

F
U

S
IO

N
. 

T
A

M
P

A
 D

I 

P
H

 

P
H

 
01/0812014 

12/13/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

T
H

O
N

O
T

O
S

A
S

S
A

, 
F

L 33592 

1000 W
A

T
E

R
M

A
N

 W
A

Y
 T

A
V

A
R

E
S

, F
L 32778 

Lake 

2205 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L W
A

T
E

R
M

A
N

, IN
C

 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L W
A

T
E

R
M

A
N

 
27360 

20545 
12/27/2013 

12/12/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

6500 38T
H

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 N
O

R
T

H
 

S
A

IN
T

 
P

irtellas 

2205 
G

A
LE

N
 O

F
 F

LO
R

ID
A

 IN
C

. 
S

T
. P

E
T

E
R

S
B

U
R

G
 

H
O

M
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 

D
E

P
T

 

P
H

 
27335 

1206 
12/09/1982 

12/05/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

, F
L33710 

6500 38T
H

 A
V

E
 

N
 

S
T

 P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

, F
L 

(727) 341-4831 
P

Inellas 

2205 
G

A
LE

N
 O

F
 F

LO
R

ID
A

, IN
C

 
C

O
LU

M
B

IA
 S

T
 

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

 M
E

D
IC

A
L 

C
E

N
T

E
R

 

P
H

 
8139 

12/03(2013 
3P

T
R

 
E

R
R

O
R

 

33710-1629 

2100 45T
H

 S
T

 #8 
1 W

E
S

T
 P

A
LM

 B
E

A
C

H
, F

L 
P

alm
 B

each 

2205 
G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 D
R

U
G

S
. IN

C
 

G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 D

R
U

G
S

 
P

It 
27319 

20521 

11/05/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

33407 

2566 S
. A

T
LA

N
T

IC
 A

V
E

 
D

A
Y

T
O

N
A

 B
E

A
C

H
 

2205 
G

E
O

R
G

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, IN

C
. 

G
E

O
R

G
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20425 

11/15/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

S
H

O
R

E
S

, F
L 32118 

2511 
S

W
A

N
 A

V
E

 S
T

E
 102 T

A
M

P
A

, 
F

L 33609 
I'lillsborough 

2205 
G

E
R

M
A

IN
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
&

 

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 IN
C

 

G
E

R
M

A
IN

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 &

 

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 IN
C

 

P
H

 
27338 

20487 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
1541 C

R
A

W
F

O
R

D
 D

R
IV

E
 

A
P

O
P

K
A

, F
L 32703 

O
range 

2205 
G

IN
G

E
R

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
G

IN
G

E
R

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27276 

20417 

20595 

12/06/2013 

1213012013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 

P
R

O
C

 
5308 S

W
8T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

M
IA

M
I, F

L 33134 
M

Iam
i-D

ade 

2205 

2205 

G
R

E
E

N
 H

O
P

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

IN
C

 

G
U

A
R

D
IA

N
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 O

F
 T

A
M

P
A

, 

G
R

E
E

N
 H

O
P

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 IN

C
 

20593 
12/30/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
9402 IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L C

O
U

R
T

 N
 

S
A

IN
T

 

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

, F
L 33716 

P
inellus 

2205 

LLC
 

11107(2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

6776 C
A

R
O

LIN
E

 S
T

 
M

ILT
O

N
, F

L 32570 
S

anta R
ota 

G
U

LF
 M

E
D

IC
A

L S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 IN

C
 

G
U

LF
 M

E
D

IC
A

L S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 IN

C
 

P
H

 
27225 

20430 

20569 
12/17/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
14000 F

IV
A

Y
 R

O
A

D
 

H
U

D
S

O
N

, F
L 34687 

P
oseD

 

2205 
R

C
A

 H
E

A
LT

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
F

 F
LO

R
ID

A
, 

IN
C

 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L M
E

D
IC

A
L C

E
N

T
E

R
 B

A
Y

O
N

E
T

 

P
O

IN
T

 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

11375 C
O

R
T

E
Z

 B
LV

D
 

B
R

O
O

K
S

V
ILLE

, F
L 

H
ernando 

2205 
R

C
A

 H
E

A
LT

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
F

 F
LO

R
ID

A
, 

IN
C

 

O
A

K
 H

ILL H
O

S
P

IT
A

L 
20604 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 

34813 

12701 S
O

U
T

H
 JO

t-IN
 Y

O
U

N
G

 P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 #120 

O
range 

2205 
H

E
A

LT
H

 P
R

O
M

O
T

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

H
U

M
A

N
 &

 A
N

IM
A

L P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

27352 
20553 

01/03/2014 
12/13/2013 

1210212013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

O
R

LA
N

D
O

, F
L 32837 

4399 N
O

B
 H

ILL R
D

 
S

U
N

R
IS

E
, F

L 33351 
B

row
ard 

2205 
H

E
A

LT
H

 S
O

U
T

H
 S

U
N

R
IS

E
 

H
E

A
LT

H
 S

O
U

T
H

 S
U

N
R

IS
E

 
P

H
 

27298 
20518 

2205 

R
E

H
A

B
ILIT

A
T

IO
N

 H
O

S
P

 
R

E
H

A
B

ILIT
A

T
IO

N
 H

O
S

P
 

20603 
01/09/2014 

12)30/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

1933 N
 P

IN
E

LLA
S

 A
V

E
 

T
A

R
P

O
N

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

, 
P

inellas 

H
E

A
LT

I-IC
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
LLC

 
H

E
A

LT
IIC

A
R

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27362 

20478 
12/11/2013 

11/21/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

F
L 34689 

901 C
LE

A
R

W
A

T
E

R
 LA

R
G

O
 R

D
 N

O
R

T
H

 
P

inches 

2205 
H

E
A

LT
H

S
O

U
T

H
 R

E
H

A
B

ILIT
A

T
IO

N
 

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L O
F

 
L 

H
E

A
LT

H
S

O
U

T
H

 R
E

H
A

B
ILIT

A
T

IO
N

 

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L O
F

 
L 

P
H

 
27286 

11/05/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

LA
R

G
O

, F
L 33770 

4268 S
U

N
B

E
A

M
 R

O
A

D
 

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

, F
L 

D
usal 

2205 
H

O
S

P
IC

E
 O

F
 N

O
R

T
H

 
E

A
S

T
 F

LO
R

ID
A

, 

IN
C

 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
r' H

O
S

P
IC

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27244 

20421 
32257 

01/23/2014 
1:55:17P

M
 

M
odifier E

ffective D
ote: 

(1/01/2013 
- 

12/31/2013 

R
ank 

LIcense 8 
F

ile B
 

Issue D
Ie 

M
ailing A

ddresa 

P
age 2 of 5 

C
ounty 

P
hone 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
pkgjpl_Iic.p_dxIS

49 
01/2312014 13.55:12 O

N
D

 



at 
M

edical Q
ualIty A

ssurance 
C

O
M

PA
S D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

Pharm
acy R

atio M
odifiers R

eport 

P
rocessed: 

01/2312014 
1:55:17P

M
 

M
odifier E

ffective D
ate: 

11/0 1i20 13 
- 

12/31/2013 

Page 3 of S 

P
rof 

O
rganization N

am
e 

D
B

A
 N

an,e 
R

ank 
Licence 8 

F
ile 

S
 

Issue D
te 

M
odifier 

E
ffct D

Ie 
- 

M
od C

de 
Lie S

tatus 
M

ailing A
ddre5s 

P
hone 

C
ounty 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
-- 

pkg_rpl_Itc.p_dx1549: 01123/2014 13:5512 O
N

D
 

2205 
IF

B
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, LLC

 
IF

B
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, 

LLC
 

20438 
11108/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
LIN

 P
R

O
C

 
6517T

A
F

T
S

T
R

E
E

T
S

U
IT

E
 101 

H
O

LLY
W

O
O

D
, F

L 33024 

B
row

ard 

2205 
IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 O
F

 S
W

F
L 

M
Y

E
R

LE
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20613 

12/31/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

1828 B
A

Y
 S

C
O

U
T

 D
R

IV
E

 
F

O
R

T
 M

Y
E

R
S

, F
L 

33907 
Lee 

2205 
J-M

 W
A

R
D

 E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
S

, LLC
 

JO
H

N
'S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20538 

12/06/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

9048 B
O

N
IT

A
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
D

 S
E

 B
O

N
IT

A
 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

, F
L 341 35 

Lee 

2205 
JA

C
 N

A
P

LE
S

 LLC
. 

G
U

LF
 S

H
O

R
E

 A
P

O
T

H
E

C
A

R
Y

 
20512 

12/02/2013 
3P

T
R

 
V

A
IT

H
D

R
E

W
 

1400 G
U

LF
S

H
O

R
E

 B
LV

D
 

N
. #100 N

A
P

LE
S

, F
L 

34102 
C

ollier 

2205 
JE

LM
A

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 
H

A
P

P
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

10142 
1980 

12/14/1987 
12/05/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
13379 S

W
42N

O
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 M

IA
M

I, 
F

L 
33175-3204 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
LA

K
E

 S
H

O
R

E
 H

M
A

, 
LLC

 
S

H
A

N
D

S
 LA

K
E

 S
H

O
R

E
 R

E
G

IO
N

A
L 

M
E

D
IC

A
L C

E
N

T
E

 
20582 

12/23/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

368 N
E

 F
R

A
N

K
LIN

 
S

T
 

LA
K

E
 C

IT
Y

, F
L 32055 

C
olum

bia 

2205 
LA

T
IN

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
S

 D
R

U
G

 S
T

O
R

E
 IN

C
. 

LA
T

IN
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

S
 D

R
U

G
 S

T
O

R
E

 IN
C

. 
20511 

12/02/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

425 S
V

V
22N

D
 A

V
E

 S
U

IT
E

 #E
1 

M
IA

M
I. F

L 
33135 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
LE

E
 M

E
M

O
R

IA
L H

E
A

LT
H

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 
H

E
A

LT
I-IP

A
R

I<
 M

E
D

IC
A

L C
E

N
T

E
R

 
20559 

12/17/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

8881 
S

. H
E

A
LT

H
P

A
R

K
 D

R
IV

E
 

F
O

R
T

 M
Y

E
R

S
, 

F
L 33908 

Lee 

2205 
LE

G
A

C
Y

 D
R

U
G

S
T

O
R

E
 C

O
R

P
 

LE
G

A
C

Y
 

D
R

U
G

S
T

O
R

E
 C

O
R

P
 

P
H

 
27303 

20488 
12/16/2013 

11/22/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4700 N
W

 7 S
T

 #1 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33128 

M
iam

I-D
ade 

2205 
LIB

E
R

T
Y

 F
O

R
 A

LL P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, IN
C

 
LIB

E
R

T
Y

 
F

O
R

 A
LL P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, IN

C
 

P
H

 
27308 

20504 
12/18/2013 

11/27/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

844.4 
V

A
 O

A
K

LA
N

D
 P

A
R

K
 B

LV
D

 
S

U
N

R
IS

E
, 

F
L 33351 

B
row

ard 

2205 
LIF

E
 LIN

E
 H

O
M

E
 C

A
R

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
. 

LIF
E

 LIN
E

 
H

O
M

E
 C

A
R

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
P

H
 

27367 
20568 

01/15/2014 
12/17/2013 

3P
T

R
 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
3740 

JO
H

N
S

 B
LU

F
F

 
R

D
 S

U
IT

E
 I 

JA
C

K
S

O
N

V
ILLE

, F
L 32224 

D
uval 

2205 
LO

IM
JT

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
, IN

C
 

O
LY

M
P

IA
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20466 
11/15/2013 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
6700 C

O
N

R
O

Y
 R

D
 S

T
E

 140 O
R

LA
N

D
O

, F
L 

32835 
O

range 

2205 
M

A
R

LIN
S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 &
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 
IN

C
. 

M
A

R
LIN

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

&
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 
20554 

12//3/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L 
IN

 P
R

O
C

 
438-441 N

W
 12 A

V
E

 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33128 

M
iam

I-D
ade 

2205 
M

A
R

T
IN

 M
E

M
O

R
IA

L 
M

E
D

IC
A

L C
E

N
T

E
R

 
IN

C
. 

T
R

A
D

IT
IO

N
 M

E
D

IC
A

L C
E

N
T

E
R

 
P

H
 

27107 
20205 

09/3012013 
11/05/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
P

060K
 8010 

S
T

U
A

R
T

, F
L 34994 

M
erlin 

2209 
M

A
R

T
IN

E
Z

 D
R

U
G

 S
T

O
R

E
 IN

C
 

P
H

 
13023 

3748 
08/19/1984 

11/01/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

874 E
 

41 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
H

IA
LE

A
H

, F
L 33013 

1305) 893-0441 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
M

A
Z

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
 C

O
R

P
 

M
A

Z
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
 C

O
R

P
 

20510 
12/31/2013 

3P
'rR

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

3825W
, 16T

H
 A

V
E

 S
U

IT
E

 #6 H
IA

LE
A

H
. F

L 
33012 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
M

E
D

O
Z

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 O
F

 P
O

LK
 IN

C
. 

M
E

D
O

Z
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 O

F
 P

O
LK

 
20586 

12126/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

4581 B
A

R
R

IS
T

E
R

 D
R

IV
E

 
C

LE
R

M
O

N
T

, 
F

L 
34711 

Lake 

2205 
M

E
D

O
Z

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 O
F

 P
O

LK
 IN

C
. 

M
E

D
O

Z
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 O

F
 P

O
LK

 
20589 

12/26/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

4581 B
A

R
R

IS
T

E
R

 D
R

IV
E

 
C

LE
R

M
O

N
T

, 
F

L 
34711 

Lake 

2205 
M

E
M

O
R

IA
L H

O
S

P
IT

A
L W

E
S

T
 

M
E

M
O

R
IA

L H
O

S
P

IT
A

L W
E

S
T

 
20581 

12/30/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

703 N
O

R
T

H
 F

LA
M

IN
G

O
 R

O
A

D
 

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

 

P
IN

E
S

, F
L 33029 

B
row

ard 

2205 
M

O
U

N
T

 S
IN

A
I C

E
N

T
E

R
 O

F
 F

LO
R

ID
A

, 
IN

C
. 

M
O

U
N

T
 S

IN
A

I C
E

N
T

E
R

 
O

F
 F

LO
R

ID
A

, 
IN

C
. 

P
H

 
27374 

20558 
01/16/2014 

12/16/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4300 A
LT

O
N

 R
O

A
D

 
M

IA
M

I B
E

A
C

H
, F

L 33140 
M

iam
I-D

ade 

2205 
O

N
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, LLC
 

O
N

E
 IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20506 
11/27/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
3850 B

IR
D

 R
O

A
D

 S
U

IT
E

 303 M
IA

M
I, F

L 33148 
M

iam
i-D

ade 

2205 
O

N
E

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, 

LLC
 

O
N

E
 IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20520 
12/03/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
3850 B

IR
D

 R
O

A
D

 S
U

IT
E

 303 M
IA

M
I. F

L 33146 
M

iam
i-D

ade 



O
M

sion of 
M

edical Q
uality A

ssurance 
C

O
M

P
A

S
 D

ataM
art R

eporting System
 

J\4 
P

harm
acy R

atio M
odifiers R

eport 

Processed: 
01/2312014 1:55:17P

M
 

P
age 4 of 5 

M
odifier 

D
ate: 

I I/O
 1/2013 

- 
12/31/2013 

M
odifier 

P
rof 

O
rganization N

am
e 

D
B

A
 N

am
e 

R
ank 

License 8 
F

ile U
 

Issue 
D

ie 
E

uet ø
te 

M
od C

de 
Lie S

tatus 
M

ailing A
ddress 

P
hone 

C
ounty 

2205 
O

P
H

A
R

M
A

 G
R

O
U

P
 LLC

 
O

N
C

O
LO

G
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
 

1-I 
27240 

20381 
11/19/2013 

11/1312013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4733W
 A

T
LA

N
T

IC
 A

V
E

 S
U

IT
E

 2 D
E

LR
A

Y
 

B
E

A
C

H
, F

L 33445 
P

alm
 B

each 

2205 
O

P
T

IO
N

 C
A

R
E

 
E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

S
, IN

C
 

W
A

LG
R

E
E

N
S

 IN
F

U
S

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

20490 
11122/2013 

3P
T

R
 

- 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
P

0 
B

O
X

 377 
D

E
E

R
F

IE
LD

, IL 60015 
U

nknow
n 

2205 
O

P
T

IO
N

 C
A

R
E

 
E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

S
, 

IN
C

. 
W

A
LG

R
E

E
N

S
 IN

F
U

S
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
P

H
 

27337 
20500 

)27/2013 
11/27/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
P

0 B
O

X
 377 

D
E

E
R

F
IE

LD
. IL 60015 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
P

A
LM

 
B

E
A

C
H

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 H
E

A
LT

H
 C

A
R

E
 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 
H

E
A

LT
H

 C
A

R
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

21939 
14279 

04/1712006 
1210412013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
1250 S

O
U

T
I-IW

1N
D

S
 D

R
IV

E
 

LA
N

T
A

N
A

, F
L 

33462 
561 655 8100 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
P

E
A

R
L S

H
A

H
 

LLC
 

S
T

. 
P

E
T

E
R

S
B

U
R

G
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

20461 
11115/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
6399 38T

H
 A

V
E

 N
O

R
T

H
 

S
U

IT
E

 A
-S

 S
A

IN
T

 

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

, F
L 33710 

P
inellas 

2205 
P

H
A

R
M

E
R

IC
A

 D
R

U
G

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
, 

LLC
 

P
H

A
R

M
E

R
IC

A
 

20590 
12/26/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
3690 N

W
53 

S
T

 S
T

E
 104 F

O
R

T
 

LA
U

D
E

R
D

A
LE

, F
L 33309 

B
row

ard 

2205 
P

H
A

R
M

E
T

R
IC

S
 S

P
E

C
IA

LIT
Y

 
G

R
O

U
P

 

O
F

 T
A

M
P

A
 

P
H

A
R

M
E

T
R

IC
S

 S
P

E
C

IA
LIT

Y
 A

X
 O

F
 

T
A

M
P

A
 

P
H

 
27290 

20423 
12)12/2013 

11/05/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

11880 29T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
. S

U
IT

E
 100-C

 S
A

IN
T

 
P

E
T

E
R

S
B

U
R

G
, F

L 33716 
P

inellas 

2205 
P

H
A

R
M

E
X

 
LLC

. 
P

H
A

R
M

E
X

 
P

H
 

27313 
20410 

12/19/2013 
11/0112013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
393 C

E
O

T
E

R
 P

O
IN

T
E

 C
IR

C
LE

 S
U

IT
E

 1481 &
 

1483 A
LT

A
M

O
N

T
E

 S
P

R
IN

G
S

, F
L 32701 

S
em

inole 

2205 
P

H
A

R
M

S
C

R
IP

T
 O

F
 

F
LO

R
ID

A
 LLC

 
P

H
A

R
M

S
C

R
IP

T
 O

F
 F

LO
R

ID
A

 S
O

U
T

H
 

P
H

 
27387 

20429 
01/22/2014 

11/07/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

81 G
LE

N
ID

A
LE

 A
V

E
 

E
D

IS
O

N
, N

J 08817 
U

nknow
n 

2205 
P

R
E

M
IE

R
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 LA

B
S

, 
IN

C
 

P
R

E
M

IE
R

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 LA
B

S
, IN

C
 

P
H

 
27284 

20436 
12111/2013 

11/08/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

P
0 B

O
X

 8510 
S

P
R

IN
G

 H
ILL, F

L 34611 
H

ernando 

2205 

2205 

P
U

B
LIX

 S
U

P
E

R
 M

A
R

K
E

T
S

, 
IN

C
. 

P
V

R
X

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
O

R
P

 

P
U

B
LIX

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
#0822 

P
V

R
X

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

C
O

R
P

 

P
H

 

P
H

 

27390 

27380 

20455 

20513 

01/23/2014 

01/21/2014 

11/12/2013 

12/02/2013 

3P
T

R
 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 

C
LE

A
R

 

P
0 B

O
X

 32018 
LA

K
E

L.A
N

D
, F

L 33802 

10327N
W

27A
V

E
 M

IA
M

I,F
L33147 

P
olk 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
R

IC
K

Y
'S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 C
O

R
P

 
R

IC
K

Y
'S

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

27321 
20525 

12/20/2013 
12/03/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
2324S

W
67A

V
E

 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33156 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
S

A
R

JU
G

R
O

U
P

LLC
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

O
F

O
R

M
O

N
D

 
B

E
A

C
H

 
P

H
 

27254 
20445 

11/26/2013 
11/08/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
O

5C
LY

D
E

M
O

R
R

IS
B

LV
D

S
U

IT
E

#200 
O

R
M

O
N

D
 B

E
A

C
H

, F
L 32174 

V
olusia 

2205 
S

E
N

IO
R

 C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 O
F

 
F

LO
R

ID
A

 LLC
 

S
E

N
IO

R
 

C
A

R
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 O
F

 F
LO

R
ID

A
 

P
H

 
27287 

20428 
12)12/2013 

11/0512313 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4175S
. P

IP
K

IN
 R

O
A

D
 S

U
IT

E
 208 LA

K
E

LA
N

D
, 

F
L 3361 

P
olk 

2205 
S

H
A

F
A

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
S

H
A

F
A

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
P

H
 

27389 
20583 

01/22/2014 
12123/2013 

2P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
6447 LA

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 

R
D

 LA
K

E
 W

O
R

T
H

, 
F

L 

33463 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 
S

H
R

IN
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

LS
 F

O
R

 
C

H
ILD

R
E

N
 

S
H

R
IN

E
R

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
LS

 F
O

R
 C

H
ILD

R
E

N
 

P
H

 
27300 

20530 
12/18/2013 

12/04/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

12502 5S
F

 P
IN

E
 D

R
IV

E
 

T
A

M
P

A
. F

L 33612 
H

illsborough 

2205 
S

ILV
E

R
 LA

K
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, LLC
 

S
ILV

E
R

 LA
K

E
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
27345 

20494 
01/03/2014 

11/26/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

2705 C
O

T
T

O
N

 C
T

. 
E

U
S

T
IS

, F
L 32728 

Lake 

2205 
S

IM
P

LE
 S

C
R

IP
T

S
 

IN
C

 
S

IM
P

LE
 

S
C

R
IP

T
S

 IN
C

 
20453 

11/12/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

528- 528 H
IA

LE
A

H
 D

R
 

H
IA

LE
A

H
, 

F
L 33010 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
S

K
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 A
N

D
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 
C

O
R

P
 

S
K

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 A

N
D

 D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
 C

O
R

P
 

P
H

 
27262 

20469 
12/03/2013 

11/15/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

2414 S
H

E
R

ID
A

N
 S

T
 

F
L 33020 

B
row

ard 

2205 

2205 

S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 B
A

P
T

IS
T

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L O
F

 
F

LO
R

ID
A

, IN
 

B
A

P
T

IS
T

 M
E

D
IC

A
L C

E
N

T
E

R
 

20570 
12/18/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
800 P

R
U

D
E

N
T

IA
L D

R
 JA

C
K

S
O

N
V

ILLE
, 

F
L 

32207 
D

uval 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

 D
R

U
G

 S
T

O
R

E
 IN

C
. 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

 D
R

U
G

 S
T

O
R

E
 IN

C
. 

20484 
11/21/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
261 W

E
S

T
W

A
R

D
 

D
R

 S
U

IT
E

 108 M
IA

M
I 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

, F
L 33166 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
S

T
 JO

S
E

P
H

'S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L, IN

C
 

S
T

. JO
S

E
P

H
'S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L-N
O

R
T

H
 

P
H

 
24185 

16867 
07/27/2009 

12/05/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

4211 V
A

N
 D

Y
K

E
 R

O
A

D
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 LU
T

Z
, F

L 33558 
(813) 443-7401 

H
illsborough 

F
lorida D

oparlm
enl of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
01/23/2D

14 13:55:12 O
N

O
 



D
ivision ol 

M
edIcal Q

uoiity A
SSU

W
flC

C
 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 

Pharm
acy R

atio M
odifiers R

eport 

P
rocessed: 

01(23/2014 
1:55:17P

M
 

M
oditier E

ffective D
ate: 

11/0112013 
- 

231/2013 

P
ageS

 of S
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
—

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 —

 
pkgrpt_Iic.p_dx1548: 01/23/2014 13:55:12 O

N
D

 

P
rof 

O
rganizatIon N

am
e 

D
B

A
 N

am
e 

R
ank 

License U
 

P
ile 

U
 

Issue . 
M

odifier 
E

R
 C

t O
te 

M
od C

de 
Lic S

tatus 
M

ailing A
ddress 

P
hone 

C
ounty 

2205 
S

T
 P

E
T

E
R

S
B

U
R

G
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L 
G

A
LE

N
 O

F
 F

LO
R

ID
A

/C
O

LU
M

B
IA

 S
T

. 
P

E
T

E
R

S
B

U
R

G
 

P
H

 
27269 

20465 
12/05/2013 

11/15/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

8600 38T
H

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 N
O

R
T

H
 

C
LE

A
R

W
A

T
E

R
, 

F
L 33787 

P
irteltes 

2205 

2205 

S
U

N
C

O
A

S
T

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 
H

E
A

LT
H

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
S

 
IN

C
. 

P
A

LM
 R

IV
E

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 

H
E

A
LT

H
 

C
E

N
T

E
R

 
20452 

11/12/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

P
0 B

ox 1348 
R

U
S

K
IN

, F
L 33575 

H
illsborough 

S
U

N
N

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 &

 D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
 IN

C
 

S
U

N
N

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 &

 D
IS

C
O

U
N

T
 IN

C
 

P
H

 
27379 

20457 
01/21/2014 

11/12/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

2140 N
/V

 36 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33142 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 
S

Y
N

E
R

G
Y

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, IN

C
 

S
Y

N
E

R
G

Y
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, IN
C

 
20482 

11/21/2013 
2P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

31201 
U

S
 H

IM
' 

19 N
 S

T
E

 2 P
A

LM
 H

A
R

B
O

R
, 

F
L 34684 

P
/relies 

2205 
T

C
S

 LA
B

S
 

L.L.C
 

C
O

M
P

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 S
H

O
P

 
P

H
 

27331 
20579 

12/26/2013 
12/17/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LO

S
E

D
 

4000 P
A

R
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
N

. 
S

A
IN

T
 

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

, F
L 33709 

727-381-8789 
P

inellan 

2205 
T

R
IM

 N
U

T
R

IT
IO

N
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 LLC

 
N

U
T

R
E

X
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

P
H

 
24695 

17464 
06/17/2010 

12/11/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

22079 U
S

 H
IM

' 
19 N

O
R

T
H

 
C

LE
A

R
W

A
T

E
R

 
F

L 33785 
(727) 286-6231 

P
inellas 

2205 
U

N
IT

E
D

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, LLC
 

U
N

IT
E

D
 

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

, LLC
 

P
H

 
27339 

20451 
12/27/2013 

11/12/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

3951 N
O

R
T

H
 H

A
V

E
R

H
ILL R

O
A

D
 S

U
IT

E
 120 &

 

121 W
E

S
T

 P
A

LM
 B

E
A

C
H

, F
L 33417 

P
alm

 B
each 

2205 

2205 

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 O
F

 S
O

U
T

H
 F

LO
R

ID
A

 
B

O
A

R
D

O
F

T
R

U
 

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 O
F

 S
O

U
T

H
 F

LO
R

ID
A

 
B

O
A

R
D

O
F

T
R

U
 

P
H

 
—

 
27345 

20435 
12/30/2013 

11/07/2013 
2P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

13330 U
S

F
 LA

U
R

E
L D

R
IV

E
 

S
U

IT
E

 6116 
T

A
M

P
A

, F
L33612 

H
illsborough 

V
A

LLE
JO

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, C

O
R

P
 

V
A

LLE
JO

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, C

O
R

P
 

20578 
12/23/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
4750 N

W
 

7 S
T

 
M

IA
M

I, F
L 33125 

M
iam

i-D
ade 

2205 

2205 

V
ILLA

G
E

S
 T

R
IC

O
U

N
T

Y
 M

E
D

IC
A

L 
C

E
N

T
E

R
, IN

C
. 

V
ILLA

G
E

S
 R

E
G

IO
N

A
L H

O
S

P
IT

A
L 

204.49 
11/12/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
1451 E

l C
am

ino R
eal 

T
H

E
 V

ILLA
G

E
S

, 
F

L 
32159 

Lake 

V
IN

T
A

G
E

 
P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
, 

LLC
 

V
IN

T
A

G
E

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
20474 

11/06/2013 
3P

T
R

 
A

P
P

L IN
 P

R
O

C
 

P
0 

B
O

X
 67 LA

D
Y

 LA
K

E
, F

L 32158 
Lake 

2205 

2205 

V
IS

T
A

 M
E

D
IC

A
L G

R
O

U
P

, LLC
 

W
A

L-M
A

R
T

 S
T

O
R

E
S

 E
A

S
T

, 
LP

 

M
E

D
IC

A
S

C
R

IP
T

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

W
A

LM
A

R
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 #10-3183 

P
H

 

P
H

 

27292 

27281 

20475 

20432 

12/12/2013 

12/12/2013 

11/18/2013 

11/07/2013 

3P
T

R
 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 

C
LE

A
R

 

156 G
R

A
N

D
 V

ILLA
 D

R
IV

E
 

LU
T

Z
, F

L 33548 

702 S
W

 8T
H

 S
T

 
B

E
N

T
O

N
V

ILLE
, A

R
 

72716-0230 

H
illsborough 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
W

A
L-M

A
R

T
 S

T
O

R
E

S
 E

A
S

T
. LP

 
W

A
LM

A
R

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #10-8400 

P
H

 
27358 

20433 
01/07/2014 

11/07/2013 
3P

T
R

 
C

LE
A

R
 

702 S
W

 8T
H

 S
T

 
B

E
N

T
O

N
V

ILLE
. A

R
 

72716-0230 
U

nknow
n 

22e5 
W

A
L-M

A
R

T
 S

T
O

R
E

S
 E

A
S

T
, LP

 
W

A
LM

A
R

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #10-2406 

P
H

 

—
 

27332 
20476 

12/27/2013 
11/19/2013 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 
702 S

W
 8T

H
 S

T
. 

B
E

N
T

O
N

V
ILLE

, A
R

 72716 
U

nknow
n 

2205 
W

A
L-M

A
R

T
 S

T
O

R
E

S
 E

A
S

T
, LP

 
W

A
LM

A
R

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #10-4141 

20815 
12/31/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L 

IN
 P

R
O

C
 

702 S
W

 8T
H

 S
T

. 
B

E
N

IT
O

N
V

ILLE
, A

R
 72716 

U
nknow

n 

2205 
W

A
L-M

A
R

T
 S

T
O

R
E

S
 E

A
S

T
, LP

 
W

A
LM

A
R

T
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 #10-3161 

20616 
12/31/2013 

3P
T

R
 

A
P

P
L IN

 P
R

O
C

 
702 S

W
 8T

H
 S

T
. 

B
E

N
T

O
N

V
ILLE

, A
R

 72716 
U

nknow
n 

2205 
W

A
LG

R
E

E
N

 C
O

. 

2205 
W

A
LG

R
E

E
N

C
O

. 

W
A

LG
R

E
E

N
JS

 #15495 

W
A

LG
R

E
E

N
S

#15178 

P
H

 
27348 

20505 

20541 

01/03/2014 
11/27/2013 

12/06/2013 

3P
T

R
 

3P
T

R
 

C
LE

A
R

 

A
P

P
LIN

P
R

O
C

 

P
0 B

O
X

 901 
D

E
E

R
F

IE
LD

, IL 60015 

P
O

B
O

X
9O

1 
D

E
E

R
F

IE
LD

, IL6001S
 

U
nknow

n 

U
nknow

n 

T
otal: 

109 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

P
rocessed: 1/22/2014 

11:56:31P
M

 

C
O

M
PA

S D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2209 

: Pharm
acy T

echnician T
raining Program

 
11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 

S
ort O

rder: O
riginal License D

ate 

Page 
1 of2 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dx1515:01/2212014 23:56:20 

O
N

D
 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

R
T

T
P

 
440 

11/01/2013 
Leon M

edical C
enters 

ii 501 
S

 W
 40T

h S
t 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33165 

R
T

T
P

 
441 

11/01/2013 
M

aria A
ngelica 

P
harm

acy &
 D

iscount 
Inc 

11355 W
est F

lagler S
treet 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33174 

R
T

T
P

 
442 

11/01/2013 
O

cala P
harm

acy LIc 
8602 S

w
 H

w
y 200 S

te # 
A

&
 B

 

O
cala, F

L 
34481 

R
T

T
P

 
443 

11/01/2013 
M

ed C
are C

hoice 
P

harm
acy 

3570 C
onsun,er S

treet 
S

uite 8 
W

est P
alm

 B
each, F

L 
33404 

R
T

T
P

 
444 

11/05/2013 
R

x O
ne P

harm
acy 

717 W
est Lancaster R

d 
O

rlando, F
L 

32809 

R
T

T
P

 
445 

11/05/2013 
X

inirn C
orporation / 

H
olly H

ill P
harm

acy 
1702 R

idgew
ood A

ve 
S

uite C
 

H
olly H

ill, F
L 

32117 

R
T

T
P

 
446 

11/05/2013 
S

chool B
oard O

f P
olk 

C
ounty 

700 E
dgew

ood D
rive 

N
orth 

F
ort M

eade, F
L 

33841 

R
T

T
P

 
447 

11/08/2013 
A

sa C
ollege 

3909 N
e 163R

d S
t 

N
orth M

iam
i B

each, F
L 

33160 

R
T

T
P

 
448 

11/12/2013 
T

ata P
harm

acy 
D

iscount, LIc 
3810 S

w
 8T

h S
treet 

C
oral G

ables, F
L 

33134 

R
T

T
P

 
449 

11/13/2013 
M

y C
om

m
unity 

P
harm

acy 
2615 S

tate R
d 7 S

te B
530 

W
ellington, F

L 
33414 

R
T

T
P

 
450 

11/13/2013 
W

ise'S
 D

rug S
tore Inc 

708 S
w

4A
ve 

G
ainesville, 

F
L 

32601 

R
T

T
P

 
451 

11/13/2013 
C

ardinal H
ealth, Inc. 

1929 N
W

 40 C
ourt 

P
om

pano B
each, F

L 
33064 

R
T

T
P

 
452 

11/14/2013 
S

cott'S
 P

harm
acy, LIc 

6505 H
w

y 29 N
orth 

M
olino, F

L 
32577 

R
T

T
P

 
453 

11/15/2013 
E

ast C
oast P

harm
acy 

LIc 
695 

N
 W

ashington A
ve 

S
te 

101 

T
itusville, F

L 
32796 

R
T

T
P

 
454 

11/18/2013 
S

unshine P
harm

acy 
S

ervices, LIc 
120 C

arter B
lvd #6 

P
olk C

ity, F
L 33868 

R
T

T
P

 
455 

11/18/2013 
S

ullivan A
nd C

ogliano 
T

raining C
enters, 

7740 N
orth K

endall D
rive 

M
iam

i, F
L 

33156 

R
T

T
P

 
456 

11119/2013 
B

ushnell P
harm

acy 
417 N

 W
est S

treet 
B

ushnell, F
L 33513 

R
T

T
P

 
457 

12/03/2013 
C

olonial D
rugs O

f 
O

rlando LIc. 
155 E

. N
ew

 E
ngland 

A
venue 

W
inter P

ark, F
L 

32789 

R
T

T
P

 
458 

12/04/2013 
R

adiance E
nterprises 

Inc 
1153 M

ain S
t S

te 102 
D

unedin, F
L 

34698 

R
T

T
P

 
459 

12/04/2013 
T

rinity P
harm

acy Ii 
Inc. 

1474 S
 B

elcher R
d 

C
learw

ater, F
L 

33764 

R
T

T
P

 
460 

12/06/2013 
E

nsley P
harm

acy, Inc 
8814 C

. P
alafox S

t 
P

ensacola, F
L 

32514 

R
T

T
P

 
461 

12/06/2013 
A

del C
onsulting Inc. 

3606 M
adaca Lane 

T
am

pa, F
L 

33618 



D
ivision of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

C
O

M
P

A
S

 D
ataM

art R
eporting System

 
N

ew
 L

icense R
eport for 2209 : Pharm

acy T
echnician T

raining Program
 

Sort O
rder: O

riginal L
icense D

ate 

11/ 1/2013 - 12/31/2013 
Page 2 of 2 

P
rocessed: 1/2212014 

11:56:31P
M

 

R
ank 

Lic N
br 

Issue D
ate 

Licensee N
am

e 
B

irth D
ate 

E
D

U
 P

rovider 
E

D
U

 Institution 
P

L A
ddress 

P
L Location 

R
T

T
P

 
462 

12/09/2013 
Jalvarez P

harm
acy, 

Inc 
483 N

w
42 A

venue 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33126 

R
T

T
P

 
463 

12/10/2013 
Life W

orth Living 
F

oundation 
6488 C

urrin 
D

r 
O

rlando, F
L 

32835 

R
T

T
P

 
464 

12/11/2013 
M

ed-C
are M

edical 
C

enter 
9766 S

w
 24T

h S
treet S

-9 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33165 

R
T

T
P

 
465 

12/11/2013 
P

eter B
otros 

P
harm

acy, Inc 
1431 O

range C
am

p R
d 

S
uite #102 

D
eland, F

L 
32724 

R
T

T
P

 
466 

12/12/2013 
R

eady S
cripts, Inc 

9783 S
w

 72N
d S

t 
M

iam
i, F

L 
33173 

R
T

T
P

 
467 

12/12/2013 
C

hancellor Institute, 
Inc. 

5648 W
est A

tlantic B
lvd. 

M
argate, F

L 
33063 

R
T

T
P

 
468 

12/13/2013 
P

harm
acy P

lus, Inc. 
7645 M

errill 
R

d S
te #210 

Jacksonville, F
L 

32277 
R

T
T

P
 

469 
12/17/2013 

V
ital R

x, Inc 
iooo E

 A
tlantic B

lvd S
te 

110 
P

om
pano B

each, F
L 

33060 
R

T
T

P
 

470 
12/17/2013 

R
ph S

olutions Inc 
14306 7T

h S
treet 

D
ade C

ity, F
L 

33523 
R

T
T

P
 

471 
12/17/2013 

C
hem

ists 
N

 
D

ruggists, Inc. 
3599W

. W
oolbright R

oad 
B

oynton B
each, F

L 
33436 

R
T

T
P

 
472 

12/18/2013 
P

sj P
harm

acy LIc 
6801-1 

U
s H

w
y 

1 N
orth 

C
ocoa, 

F
L 

32927 
R

T
T

P
 

473 
12/18/2013 

F
riends P

harm
acy, 

LI c 
1813 E

. F
ow

ler A
venue 

T
am

pa, F
L 33612 

R
T

T
P

 
474 

12/19/2013 
P

hysician C
hoice 

P
harm

acy 
4529 N

 P
ine 

Island R
d 

S
unrise, F

L 
33351 

R
T

T
P

 
475 

12/26/2013 
J'S

 P
harm

acy Llc 
6416 R

idge R
d 

P
ort R

ichey, F
L 

34668 

T
otal R

ecords: 
36 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
pkg_rpt_lic.p_dxl5l 5:01/22/2014 23:56:20 

O
N

D
 



Provider Name Provider# Coarse Name Coorse U Statos Approved Date 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION SR-7S4 

REDUCING MEDICATION ERRORS THROUGH IMPLEMENTING A 

CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM SRSS4 AFPROVED 11/17/2013 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY SO-241R SELF-STUDY ACTIVITY FOR FHARMACISTS IN LONG-TERM CARE 2S-41R25R AFPROVED 10/18/2013 

DADE COUNTY PHARMACY ASSR C/OACEVES 55-24RR 

18TH ANNUAL SOUTH FLORIDA RESIDENCY SEMINAR: ON THE ROAD TO 

'ROVIDING FRIMARY CARE SERVICES.RCE.SAT 2S-41R313 AFPROVED 12/S/2S13 

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS SR-3RR7 2013 ASCP ANNUAL MEETING & EYHIOITION 20-414515 AFPROVED 11/17/2013 

DADE COUNTY PHARMACY ASSN C/O ACEVES SR-2488 

1RTH ANNUAL SOUTH FLORIDA RESIDENCY SEMINAR OR THE ROAD TO 

FROVIDING FRIMARY CARE SERVICES - RCE SUN 2R-41R314 AFPROVED 12/S/2013 

FREECECOM SO-3S1S THE GRAYING OF HIV 2S-41R23R AFPROVED 11/17/2013 

FLORIDA SOCIETY OF HEALTH SYSTEM FHARMACISTS SS-353R NORTHEAST SOCIETY FALL MEETING: PHARMACY PRACTICE UFDATES 2013 20-411293 AFPROVED 10/1/2013 
FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 REGULATORY AND LAW CONFERENCE 2R-41R4RR AFPROVED 11/17/25TY 

FLORIDA A&M UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY AND 

FHARMACEUTICAL SCIENCES 50-3572 

AN INITIAL CERTIFICATION SEMINAR FOR CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS 

AND CONSULTANT RECERTIFICATION 2R-4237R5 AFPROVED 12/11/2013 



Provider Name Provider# Coarse Name Coorse U Statos Approved Date 

FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION SR-7S4 

REDUCING MEDICATION ERRORS THROUGH IMPLEMENTING A 

CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM SRSS4 AFPROVED 11/17/2013 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA COLLEGE OF PHARMACY SO-241R SELF-STUDY ACTIVITY FOR FHARMACISTS IN LONG-TERM CARE 2S-41R25R AFPROVED 10/18/2013 

DADE COUNTY PHARMACY ASSR C/OACEVES 55-24RR 

18TH ANNUAL SOUTH FLORIDA RESIDENCY SEMINAR: ON THE ROAD TO 

'ROVIDING FRIMARY CARE SERVICES.RCE.SAT 2S-41R313 AFPROVED 12/S/2S13 

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS SR-3RR7 2013 ASCP ANNUAL MEETING & EYHIOITION 20-414515 AFPROVED 11/17/2013 

DADE COUNTY PHARMACY ASSN C/O ACEVES SR-2488 

1RTH ANNUAL SOUTH FLORIDA RESIDENCY SEMINAR OR THE ROAD TO 

FROVIDING FRIMARY CARE SERVICES - RCE SUN 2R-41R314 AFPROVED 12/S/2013 

FREECECOM SO-3S1S THE GRAYING OF HIV 2S-41R23R AFPROVED 11/17/2013 

FLORIDA SOCIETY OF HEALTH SYSTEM FHARMACISTS SS-353R NORTHEAST SOCIETY FALL MEETING: PHARMACY PRACTICE UFDATES 2013 20-411293 AFPROVED 10/1/2013 
FLORIDA PHARMACY ASSOCIATION 50-754 REGULATORY AND LAW CONFERENCE 2R-41R4RR AFPROVED 11/17/25TY 

FLORIDA A&M UNIVERSITY COLLEGE OF PHARMACY AND 

FHARMACEUTICAL SCIENCES 50-3572 

AN INITIAL CERTIFICATION SEMINAR FOR CONSULTANT PHARMACISTS 

AND CONSULTANT RECERTIFICATION 2R-4237R5 AFPROVED 12/11/2013 



Individual Name Title of Course Hours Offered 
Uyen Francis Ulcerative Colitis: The What, When, and Why of Treatment 1.5 hours of General 
Uyen Francis Clinical Practice Skills in a Changing World 13 hours of General 



MEETING MINUTES 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
FULL BOARD MEETING 

December 3-4, 2013 
Hilton Hotel University of Florida 

1714 SW th Street 
Gainesville, FL 32607 

(352) 371-3600 

Board : 
Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair, Miami 
Jeffery J. Mesaros, PharmD, Vice-Chair, Orlando 
Leo J. "Lee" Fallon, BPharm, PhD, The Villages 
Debra B. Glass, BPharm, Tallahassee 
Gavin Meshad, Consumer Member, Sarasota 
Mark Mikhael, PharmD, Orlando 
Jeenu Philip, BPharm, Jacksonville 
Lorena Risch, Consumer Member, Bradenton 
Michele Weizer, PharmD, Boca Raton 

Board : 
Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director 
Christy Robinson, Program Operations Administrator 
Jay Cumbie, Regulatory Specialist II 

Board : 
David Flynn, Assistant Attorney General 
Lynette Non, Assistant Attorney General 

Department of Health : 
Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counsel 
Matthew Witters, Assistant General Counsel 
Christopher Jurich, Assistant General Counsel 

Tuesday, December 3, 2013 — 1:00 

p.m. Call to Order by Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

All Board members were present with the exception of Gavin Meshad. 

Mr. Garcia welcomed newly appointed Board member Jeenu Philip to the Florida Board of Pharmacy. 

Mr. Garcia informed everyone in attendance of Mark Whitten's recent promotion to "Chief of 
Investigative Services" and thanked him for all of his hard work and dedication to the Board of Pharmacy 
during his tenure as Executive Director. 

TAB1 REPORTS 
A. Chair's Report — Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

1. Update on Executive Director Position 

Mr. Garcia informed the Board that Tammy Collins will be serving as Acting Executive Director during 
the search for a new permanent Executive Director. 

Mr. Garcia also gave a brief overview of the process the Department will go through in selecting a new 
Executive Director. 

Mr. Garcia introduced a request from the University of Florida pharmacy on campus to modify their 
hours for a week during the holidays. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to approve the request. Motion carried. 

Page 1 of 24 



B. Acting Executive Director's Report — Tammy Collins 

Ms. Collins informed the Board that the full Rules Committee report will be heard on December 4, 2013 
as to give the Board members a chance to review the discussions from the earlier meeting. 

Ms. Collins also stated that the committee reports will be heard on the second day of the full Board 
meeting moving forward. 

Dr. Mesaros informed the Board of a question that arose at the Rules Committee regarding Nurse 
practitioners. Dr. Mesaros then asked Dr. Mikhael to present the question and to have Mr. Flynn's 
response included on the record. 

Dr. Mikhael asked if advanced registered nurse practitioners are allowed to order prescriptions under the 
attending physicians name and if that would be considered mislabeling? 

Mr. Flynn stated that a pharmacist can dispense any prescription that is written by a healthcare provider 
which is authorized by state or federal law to write said prescription. Mr. Flynn stated any verification 
issue that a pharmacist comes across can be verified using the same process as any other prescription such 
as calling the physician if the pharmacist wishes to do so. 

George Malone approached the Board to request further clarification on the legality concerning "labeling" 
of a prescription between an ANRP and a Doctor. 

Brian Kahan approached the Board to suggest a revision of the rule that describes the definition of a 
prescription to state that an ARNP has prescriptive authority to create a valid prescription. 

Bob Parrado approached the Board to suggest the Board attempt to change the insurance requirement for 
the pharmacy to use the MPI of the ARNP as opposed to the physicians DEA number. 

1. Compounding Rules Committee Michele Weizer, PharmD 

Dr. Weizer provided a report from the December 2, 2013 Compounding Rules Committee and stated that 
the committee is ready to give two recommendations to the Board. Dr. Weizer highlighted the two 
different exceptions that were discussed at the committee meeting including facility design and the 
cleaning of a workspace. 

Dr. Weizer introduced Federal Legislation titled "HR 3204 Drug Quality and Security Act" that had 
recently been signed into law by the President and requested that the Board open up the office-use 
compounding rule to look at quantity issues as well as find any conflicts that may be present due to the 
new Federal legislation. 

Mr. Flynn gave a high level summary of "HR 32O4Drug Quality and Security Act" and gave a brief 
description of how this legislation could potentially affect the practice and profession of pharmacy in 
Florida. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to open up House Bill 3204 to look at limited quantities 
and to look at the Board's rule with implications from the FDA. Motion canied. 

2. Update on Sterile Compounding Permits 

Page 2 of 24 



Ms. Collins provided an update on the sterile compounding permits. Ms. Collins stated that 28 
applications had been submitted with 12 currently under review in the Board office and 16 having already 
been issued. Ms. Collins stated that all Pharmacies that currently engage in sterile compounding have 
until March 21, 2014 to obtain this permit free of charge. 

3. Healthy Weight Liaison 

Ms. Collins informed the Board of the Surgeon General's request for a volunteer to serve as a "Healthy 
Weight Liaison" from each Board. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to nominate Albert Garcia to be the "Healthy Weight 
Liaison". Motion carried. 

C. Attorney General's Report — Lynette Norr, Assistant Attorney General 
1. Request for Declaratory Statement David Benoit 

Mr. Flynn gave a brief overview of the petition for a declaratory statement that was submitted by a Mr. 
Benoit. Mr. Flynn stated that an exemption provision for "isolated transactions" in Chapter 465 that 
already answers the question effectively and recommended that the Board deny the petition for 
declaratory statement. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to deny the petition for a declaratory statement. Motion 
carried. 

D. Chief Investigative Services Report — Mark Whitten 

Mark Whitten thanked the Board for their support over his time working for the Board. Mr. Whitten also 
mentioned that the majority of the 28 sterile compounding permits that have been issued have been from 
institutional pharmacies. 

Mr. Whitten stated that pharmacy opened the fiscal year with 4,987 inspections needing to be done with 
1,867 having already been completed at a completion rate of 37.44%. Mr. Whitten also stated that 
dispensing practitioners started this fiscal year with 8,049 and have completed 2,830 at a completion 
percentage of 35.16%. Mr. Whitten stated that out of the 649 sterile compounding facilities, 361 have 
been inspected with 6 of the facilities being closed. 

Dr. Mesaros thanked Mark Whitten for all his hard work and dedication during his tenure as the 
Executive Director of the Board of Pharmacy. 

TAB 2 BUSINESS — Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

A. Ratification of Issued Licenses/Certificates & Staffing Ratios 
1. Pharmacist (Licensure) (Client 2201) 198 

2. Pharmacist (Exam Eligibility) (Client 2201) 104 
3. Pharmacist Interns (Client 2202) 932 
4. Registered Pharmacy Teclmicians (Client 2208) 880 
5. Consultant Pharmacist (Client 2203) 37 
6. Nuclear Pharmacist (Client 2204) 0 

7. Pharmacies/Facilities (Client 2205) 136 

8. Registered Pharmacy Technician Ratios (2:1 or 3:1)- 78 
9. Pharmacy Technician Training Program (Client 2209) - 28 

Page 3 of 24 



10. CE Providers 10 

11. CE Courses 24 
12. CE Individual Requests (Approved) —3 

13. CE Individual Requests (Denied) - 0 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to ratify licenses, certificates, & staffing ratios. Motion 
carried. 

B. Review and Approval of Minutes 
1. October 8-9, 2013 Meeting Minutes 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to approve the October 8-9, 2013 meeting minutes. 
Motion carried. 

C. Election of Officers 
1. Chair 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to nominate Dr. Jeff Mesaros for Chair. Motion carried. 

2. Vice-Chair 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Mesaros, to nominate Mrs. Debra Glass for Vice-Chair. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Risch, to nominate Dr. Michele Weizer for Vice-Chair. 

The Board conducted a vote and Dr. Michele Weizer was elected Vice-Chair by a vote of 5 3. Motion 
carried. 

D. Presentations 
1. GetMyRx, Inc 

Edwin Bayo, Esquire and the CEO of GetMyRx, Inc. gave a brief presentation regarding their mobile 
device app designed for ordering prescriptions. 

Public : Albert Garcia opened up the floor to public comments. 

Dr. Mesaros requested the Board consider changing the date of the February 4-5, 2014 Board of 
Pharmacy meeting to February 11-12, 2014. 

Dr. Mesaros brought up the issue of employees that are labeled cashier and only function as a cashier 
being counted against the technician ratio. 

Dr. Salem approached the Board to speak about the issue and stated that employees that are working non- 
drug functions should not be counted against the technician ratio. 

The Board referenced a discussion had at the June 4-5, 2013 Board of Pharmacy meeting in Miami, FL 
and reiterated that electronic prescriptions for controlled substances are recognized and authorized by 
Florida law as long as they are compliant with CFR. The Board also reiterated the fact that a fax copy of 
an electronically generated prescription, though not electronically submitted, is not authorized by Florida 
law. The Board went on to elaborate on that point stating that a prescription has to be created, submitted, 
and received electronically in order to be considered a valid electronic prescription. 

Page 4 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded Dr. Weizer to ADJOURN the meeting at 3:01pm. Motion carried. 

Wednesday, October 9, 2013 9:00 . 
9:00 a.m. Call To Order by Albert Garcia, BPharm, MHL, Chair 

All members were present with the exception of Gavin Meshad. 

Mr. Garcia introduced the newest Board member Jeenu Philip to the audience and had Mr. Philip give a 
brief introduction and his history in the profession of pharmacy. 

Mr. Garcia informed the audience that the Rules Committee report, originally scheduled for December 3, 
2013, is going to be presented today. 

Mr. Mesaros gave a brief overview of the proceedings of the Rules Committee and asked Ms. Non to 
present the rules and rule changes that are ready for a Board vote. 

Ms. Norr presented the changes to 64B16-30.OO1 and requested a vote from the Board. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the changes to 64B16-30.001. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

Ms. Norr then presented the changes to Rule 64B16-28.450 and requested a vote from the Board. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the changes to Rule 64B16-28.450. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

Ms. Norr presented the comments presented by JAPC (Joint Administrative Procedures Committee) 
regarding Rule 64B 16-28.301 and explained that the Rules committee suggested that the JAPC comments 
were addressed by Rule 64B16-28.140. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Weizer, that the comments presented by JAPC are covered by 
Rule 64B 16-28.140. Motion carried. 

Ms. Norr presented the changes to Rule 64B16-28.l00 and requested a vote from the Board. 

Page 5of24 



Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the changes to Rule 64B16-28.100. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

Ms. Non presented Rule 64B16-26.608 and requested a vote from the Board. 

Dr. Weizer suggested editing the language to include the words "of record" when referring to consultant 
pharmacists. 

Mr. Garcia suggested editing the language by replacing the word "licensed" with "registered" when 
referring to pharmacy technicians. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept Rule 64B16-26.608 with edits suggested by 
Dr. Weizer and Mr. Garcia. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

Ms. Non presented Rule 64B16-28.303 to the Board and requested a vote from the Board. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the Rule as presented. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

At the request of Mr. Garcia, Ms. Norr gave a brief overview of JAPC (Joint Administrative Procedures 
Committee) and its functions for the benefit of the students in the audience. 

Ms. Non presented the changes to Rule 64B16-28.140 and requested a vote from the Board. 

Motion: by Mr. Philip, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the changes to Rule 64B16-28.140. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Mikhacl, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Page 6 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

TAB 3 Prosecuting Attorney Report Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counsel 
1. Prosecuting Services Report 

Ms. Yolonda Green presented the Prosecuting Services Unit. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to allow PSU to continue prosecuting cases one year or 
older. Motion carried. 

Ms. Green informed the Board that the Prosecution Services Unit has assembled a Pharmacy team within 
the Unit that will deal exclusively with Pharmacy cases. The team will be led by Matthew Witters and 
will also include Christopher Jurich, Ana Gargollo-McDonald, and a fourth team member to be 
determined later. 

TAB 4 DISCIPLINARY CASES Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counsel 

A. SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT- APPEARANCE REQUIRED CASES 
A-l Millenium Pharmacy, Inc., PH 25300. Miami, FL. 

Case No. 20 13-02802 - PCP: Weizer/Meshad 

Respondent violated: 
Count One: Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a 
violation of Rule 64B16-27.420(4)(a), F.A.C., by failing to insure a registered pharmacy technician was 
properly identified. 
Count Two: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), through a violation of Rule 64B16-28.102(5)(a), F.A.C., 
by failing to have a copy of a current Facts and Comparisons. 
Count Three: Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through 
a violation of Rule 64B16-28.l10, F.A.C., by failing to remove from the prescription department all 
pharmaceuticals which bear upon the container an expiration date which has been reached. 
Count Four: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a 
violation of Rule 64B16-28.118(4), F.A.C., because copy of inventory for purchased medication was 
missing lot numbers. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay costs limited to 
$2,000.00. Respondent shall pay a fine of $1,000.00. Respondent must correct all deficiencies. 

Respondent was not present. 

This case was pulled by the Prosecution Services Unit. 

A-2 Senior Living Properties, PH 22106 Maitland, FL. 
Case No. 20 13-06756 PCP: Mesaros/Glass 

Respondent violated: 
Count One: Section 456.072(l)(dd), F.S. (2010 and 2012), by violating Section 456.073, F.S., by 
providing regulated services as a class I institutional pharmacy without an active status permit. 

Page 7o124 



Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall by present. Respondent shall pay a fine of 
$1,000.00. Respondent shall pay costs of $1,285.74. 

The Regional Director of Operations for Senior Living Properties was present and sworn in by the court 
reporter. The respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-3 Dino Aljoni, PS 38099 St. Augustine, FL 
Case No. 20 12-08758 PCP: FallonlMeshad 

Respondent violated: 
Count One: Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2011), by violating 893.04(1)(b), F.S. (2011). 

Terms of Settlement Agreement: Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay an administrative 
fine in the amount of $5,000.00 payable within 90 days. Respondent shall pay costs limited to $2,833.91 
within 90 days. Respondent shall be placed on probation for a period of 1 year with standard terms. 

The respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. The respondent was not represented by 
counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to reject the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mr. Garcia, for the same Settlement Agreement with the addition of 
a 12 hour laws and rules CE. Motion failed due to a 3 in favor to 4 in opposition vote. 

Motion: by Mr. Philip, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, for the original Settlement Agreement with the addition 
of the 12 hour laws and rules CE but without the 1 year probationary period. Motion carried with Mr. 
Garcia, Mrs. Glass, and Dr. Weizer in opposition. 

A-4 Shiang-Tyng Lee, PS 39134— Jacksonville, FL 
Case No. 20 11-19742 PCP: Glass/Mesaros 

Respondent violated 
Count One: Section 465.016(l)(h), F.S. (2012), by having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in 
another state for any offense that would constitute a violation of this chapter. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay administrative 
fine in the amount of $2,000.00 payable within 30 days. Respondent shall pay costs of $1,627.50. 
Respondent shall be placed on probation for 1 year. Respondent shall complete a 12 hour laws and rules 
CE to be completed within 1 year. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was represented by Robert P. 
Esgro. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to allow Mr. Esgro to serve as counsel as a Qualified 
Representative. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to reject the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Page 8 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, for the same Settlement Agreement with the addition of 
the condition that the respondent not be permitted to work as a PDM during the probationary period. 
Motion canied. 

A-5 Scott Edward Kierenia, PS 47160 Winter Garden, FL 
Case No. 2013-06313 PCP: Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(g), F.S. (2012), by furnishing upon prescription an 
ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine in the 
amount of $1,000.00 within 30 days. Respondent shall pay costs of $1,248.98 within 90 days. 
Respondent shall complete 8 hour med errors course. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-6 Sinkiwe Chiwara, PS 36603 Lauderdale Lakes, FL 
Case No. 20 13-04483 PCP: Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(r), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 
465.022(1 1)(a), F.S. (2012), by failing to ensure the Permittee's compliance with Rule 64B16-28.102(4), 
F.A.C., which requires that the prescription department of each pharmacy be provided with adequate 
sanitation to insure the prescription department is operating under clean, sanitary, uncrowded, and health 
conditions. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 465.0 16(1)(r), F.S. (2012), by violating 465.022(1 1)(a), F.S. 
(2012), by failing to ensure the Permittee's compliance with Rule 64B16-28.110, F.A.C., which requires 
expired medications be removed from the shelves. 
Count Three: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(r), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 
465.022(1 1)(a), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 893.07(1)(b), F.S. (2012), by failing to maintain a 
complete and accurate record of each substance manufactured, received, sold, delivered, or otherwise 
disposed of by him or her. 
Count Four: Respondent violated 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 499.005(2), F.S. 
(2012), by the adulteration or misbranding of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay administrative 
fine in the amount of $2,500.00 payable within 30 days. Respondent must pay costs not to exceed 
$1,016.70. Respondent shall be placed on probation for the period of one year. Respondent must 
completed a 12 hour laws and rules CE within one year. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was represented by Brian Kahan, 
Esquire. 

Motion: by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to reject the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mr. Garcia, seconded by Mrs. Glass, for the same Settlement Agreement with the condition 
that she can only act as a PDM at the pharmacy holding permit PH23 858. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to extend payment deadline to one year. Motion 
carried. 

Page 9 of 24 



A-7 El Vignoble, LLC, PH 23858. Lauderdale Lakes, FL 
Case No. 20 13-04482 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-102(4), 
F.A.C., which requires that the prescription department of each pharmacy be provided with adequate 
sanitation to insure the prescription department is operating under clean, sanitary, uncrowded, and healthy 
conditions. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.l 10, 
F.A.C., which requires expired medications be removed from the shelves. 
Count Three: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 893.07(1)(b), 
F.S. (2012), which requires dispensers of controlled substances to maintain, on a current basis, a complete 
and accurate record of each substance manufactured, received, sold, delivered, or otherwise disposed of 
by him or her. 
Count Four: Respondent violated Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 499.005(2), 
F.S. (2012), by the adulteration or misbranding of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of 
$2,500.00 within 30 days. Respondent shall pay costs not over $1,087.03. Respondent shall be placed on 
probation for a period of one year with terms to include: semi-annual inspections, development of a 
corrective action plan, and a mandate to appear in front of the Board within the last 3 months of 
probationary period. 

Sinikiwe Chiwara was present on behalf of El Vignoble, LLC and sworn in by the court reporter. 
Respondent was represented by Brian Kahan, Esquire. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mr. Philip, to accept the Settlement Agreement with the oral 
amendment to extend payment deadline to one year. Motion carried. 

A-8 Melissa Terpos, RPT 39879 Stuart, FL 
Case No. 2013-11591 — PCP Glass/Mesaros 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 893.13(6)(a), 
F.S. (2012), by being "in actual possession of a controlled substance" without having a valid prescription 
for the controlled substance. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of 
$2500.00. Respondent shall pay costs through the date of entry of the final order. Respondent shall be 
placed on a probationary period of one year to run concurrent with any PRN contract. Respondent shall 
receive an evaluation from PRN within 60 days and comply with any requirements presented by PRN. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. The respondent was not represented by 
counsel. 

Motion: Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to reject the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-9 HVVP Rx, LLC, PH 25109— Seminole, FL 
Case No. 20 13-06250 PCP Fallon/Glass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16- 
28.820(3)(a), F.A.C. 

Page 10 of 24 



Count Two: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c). F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16- 
28.830(5). 
Count Three: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16- 
27.797(7)(b), F.A.C. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of 
$2,500.00. Respondent shall pay costs of $3, 254.88. Respondent shall surrender Special 
Parenteral/Enteral modifier. Respondent shall be placed on a probationary period of one year. 

Respondent (Pharmacy Manager) was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was 
represented by Daniel G. Musca, Esquire. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mesaros, to impose costs. Motion carried. 

A-b Uchenna Chineye Ezenwa, PS 42502 Pembroke Pines, FL 
Case No. 20 13-03004 PCP Fallon/Glass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(t)(1), F.S. (2012), by committing an error or 
omission during the performance of a specific function of prescription drug processing. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent must pay a fine of 
$1,000.00. Respondent must pay costs of $1,022.43. Respondent must complete an 8 hour continuing 
education course in the prevention of medication errors. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Risch, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-i 1 Palm Springs General Hospital, PH 2235. Hialeah, FL 
Case No. 20 13-04842 PCP Mesaros/Risch 

Count One: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(a), F.A.C. which 
requires an anteroom area to be maintained within ISO Class 8 level of particulate contamination. 
Count Two: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(f), F.A.C. which 
requires the buffer area to be maintained within ISO Class 7 level of particulate contamination and not 
contain a sink or drain. 
Count Three: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012) by violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(k), F.A.C. which 
requires that the pharmacy compounding parenteral and sterile preparation shall have appropriate 
environmental control devices capable of maintaining at least class 100 conditions in the work place 
where critical objects are exposed and critical activities are performed. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of 
$2,000.00. Respondent shall pay costs of $1,821.10. 

Dr. Alphonso was present on behalf of the respondent and was sworn in by the court reporter. The 
Respondent was represented by Miles A. McGrane III, Esquire. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

Page 11 of 24 



A-12 Infupharma, PH 23566 Hollywood, FL 
Case No. 2011-11350 PCP Fallon/Glass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(l)(k), F.S. (2010, 2011), by violating Section 
499.005(22), by operating as a prescription drug repackager without first obtaining the proper permit to 
do so. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(o), F.S. (2010, 2011), by practicing or offering to 
practice beyond the scope permitted by law or accepting and performing professional responsibilities the 
licensee knows, or has reason to know, the licensee is not competent to perform. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of 
$10,000.00. Respondent shall costs limited to $6,139.10. Respondent shall surrender Special Parenteral 
and Enteral Modifier to the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent must complete an 8 hour laws and rules CE 
course to be completed within one year of the filing of the final order. Respondent shall be placed on 
probation for a period of 2 years with semi-annual inspections to be conducted at respondent's cost. 

Mark Ezzo was present on behalf of Infupharma and was sworn in by the court reporter. The respondent 
was represented by Edwin Bayo, Esquire. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mr. Philip, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

A-13 Gino Alberto Bolanos, PS 23866 Miami, FL 
Case No. 20 13-00502 PCP Glass/Mesaros 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 
465.022(11)(a), F.S. (2012), by failing to ensure the permittee's compliance with Section 499.005(28), 
F.S. (2012), by failing to acquire a pedigree paper. 

Terms of Settlement : Respondent shall be present. Respondent shall pay a fine of $500.00. 
Respondent shall pay costs limited to $1,010.77. Respondent shall complete a 12 hour laws and rules CE. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the Settlement Agreement. Motion carried. 

B. DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 

DOW-i Nohelia Pena, RPT 30775 Kissimmee, FL 
Case No. 20 13-06080 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(aa), F.S. (2012), which subjects a licensee to 
discipline for testing positive for any drug, as defined in Section 112.0455, on any confirmed pre- 
employment or employer-ordered drug screening when the practitioner does not have a lawful 
prescription and legitimate medical reason for using the drug. 

The respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. The respondent was not represented by 
counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
waived the right to a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Page 12 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mesaros, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty and that you adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to vacate previous motions. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
waived the right to a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty and that you adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to vacate motion that she waived her right and to 
continue as an informal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Recommended Penalty: License to remain suspended until respondent has undergone a PRN 
evaluation. Respondent must receive PRN evaluation within 60 days and sign any required 
contract within 90 days of request. Board reserves jurisdiction to impose probation at reasonable 
terms not to exceed respondent's PRN contract. Respondent must pay a fine of $500.00 to be paid 
within 90 days of reinstatement. Respondent must pay costs in an amount to follow. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the recommendations of the Department. 
Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to asses costs in the amount of $984.55 within 90 days 
of reinstatement. Motion carried. 

DOW-2 Ryan Daniel Rodriguez, RPT 5867 Jacksonville, FL 
Case No. 20 13-00926 PCP Fallon/Glass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(q), F.S. (2012), by violating a lawful order of the 
department or the Board. 

The case was pulled by the Department. 

DOW-3 Ihab S. Barsoum, PS 30945 Tampa, FL. 
Case No. 2011-17660 PCP Glass/Mullins 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by being convicted or found guilty 
of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any 
jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

Page 13 of 24 



Count Two: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(x), F.S. (2012), by failing to report to the Board in 
writing within thirty days after the licensee has been conceited of found guilty of, or entered a plea of 
nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
waived the right to a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Recommended Penalty: Revocation 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by D. Mikhael, to accept the recommendations of the Department. 
Motion carried. 

The Department withdrew its motion for costs. 

DOW-4 Katy Elizabeth Wallis, PS 48435 Sarasota, FL 
Case No. 20 13-07966 — PCP Mesaros/Glass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2011), when she possessed hydrocodone, 
which she did not obtain lawfully or pursuant to a valid prescription or order, in violation of Title 21, 
United States Code, section 843. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2011), when she pled guilty to unlawful 
possession of a controlled substance. 

The respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
waived the right to a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Wcizcr, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Falbon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Page 14 of 24 



Recommended Penalty: License shall remain suspended until respondent has undergone a PRN 
evaluation within 60 days and sign any contract offered within 90 days of PRN's request. 
Respondent shall pay a fine of $1,000.00 within 90 days of reinstatement. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Mr. Garcia, to accept the recommendations or the Department. 
Motion: failed with all Board members in opposition. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to have respondent remain suspended indefinitely until 
PRN will advocate on respondent's behalf that they are able to practice with reasonable skill and safety 
with terms and fines to be determined later. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to asses costs of $2,101.45 to be paid within 90 days 
of reinstatement. Motion carried. 

C. VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENTS 

VR's voted on at one time: VR's 1,2,3,4, and 5 were voted on as a group. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the above-listed Voluntary Relinquishments. 
Motion carried. 

VR-1 Samantha Margarita Solis, RPT 41014 Lake Mary, FL. 
Case No. 20 13-12552 PCP (None) 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion above. 

VR-2 Robert S. Wesley, RPT 47994 New Port Richey, FL 
Case No. 20 13-08298 PCP Waived 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion above. 

VR-3 Alexis Michelle Stall, PSI 29247 
Case No. 2013-11854 PCP Waived 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion above. 

VR-4 SDU, Inc., PH 13238 Boca Raton, FL 
Case No. 20 13-06926 PCP Waived 

Page 15of24 



The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion above. 

VR-5 NTC Urgent Care Centers, LLC, PH 21462 Clermont, FL 
Case No. 2013-07117 PCP Waived 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

See motion above. 

VR-6 Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc., PH 25947 Miami, FL 
Case No. 2013-01125 PCP RischlMesaros 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. Motion 
carried. 

VR-7 Roy Cole Sr., RPT 19986— Tarpon Springs, FL 

Case No. 20 13-08984 PCP Weizer/ Meshad 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. Motion 
carried. 

VR-8 Main Street Family Pharmacy, LLC, PH 24815 Newbern, TN 
Case No. 20 13-07092 PCP Glass/Mesaros 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. Motion 
carried. 

VR-9 Avalon Park Pharmacy, PH 24071 Orlando, FL 

Case No. 2012-13 103 Weizer/Meshad 

The Department suggests that the Board entertain a Motion Accepting the Voluntary Relinquishment 
executed by Respondent in resolution of this case. 

Martin Dix, Esquire was present on behalf of the Respondent. 

This case was pulled by the Department. 

Page 16 of 24 



D. BOARD ACTION BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT 

I-i James M. Maister, PS 34202 Wesley Chapel, FL. 
Case No. 2010-19143 PCP MeshadlWeizer 

This case was granted a continuance and will be heard at the February Board of Pharmacy 
meeting. 

1-2 Dino Jose Antonioni, PS 38504. Miramar, FL 
Case No. 20 12-14458. PCP Griffin/Mesaros 

Mr. Garcia recused himself from this case. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by being convicted of found guilty 
of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any 
jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice pharmacy. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to proceed as an informal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
requested a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty and to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the Administrative 
Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the recommendations of the Department. 
Motion carried. 

The Department withdrew motion for costs. 

1-3 Lamonte George Hambrick, RPT 8527 Tampa, FL 
Case No. 2013-01501 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(x), F.S. (2012), by failing to report to the Board, or 
the department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days after the licensee has been convicted or 
found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any 
jurisdiction, constitutes grounds for discipline. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Page 17 of 24 



Mr. Flynn informed the Board of the respondent's request to either have his case be continued until his 
appeals process is completed or have his case heard telephonically due to his current incarceration. 

Motion: Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to provide a statement to the respondent that he has the 
ability to submit a written argument for the Board regarding his circumstances or send representation. 
The statement shall also deny the respondent's request for a telephonic hearing and inform the respondent 
that voluntary relinquishment is still an option. Motion carried. 

1-4 Eric Jansen Gaines II, RPT 45259 Crawfordville, FL 
Case No. 20 12-16863 PCP Mesaros/Risch 

Count One: Respondent has violated Section 465.016(1)(e), F.S. (2012), by violating Chapter 893, F.S. 
(2012) 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by being convicted of or entering a 
plea of nob contendere to a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the ability to 
practice, Respondent's profession. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was represented by Martin Dix, 
Esquire. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
requested a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint. Motion carried. 

Respondent requested a continuance until the next Board of Pharmacy meeting. 

Dr. Brown (Professional Resource Network) stated that his initial evaluation concluded that the 
respondent is not safe to practice. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to deny the respondent's request for a continuance. 
Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the recommendations of the Department. 
Motion carried. 

The Department withdrew motion for costs. 

1-5 Matthew Louis Earney, PS 45018 Naples, FL 
Case No. 20 13-05487. PCP Mesaros/Glass 

Page 18 of 24 



Count One: Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 
465.022(1 1)(a), F.S. (2012), by failing to ensure the permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under 
those chapters as they relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription 
drugs. 

This case was pulled by the Department. 

1-6 Misir Drugs, LLC, PH 25701 Naples, FL 
Case No. 20 13-05486. PCP Mesaros/Glass 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16- 
28.108(3)(e), F.A.C., which requires the label on the immediate container of a repackaged product or a 
multiple unit prepackaged drug product shall include the expiration date of the enclosed medication. 
Count Two: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16- 
28.108(3)(f), F.A.C., which requires the label on the immediate container of a repackaged product or a 
multiple unit prepackaged drug product shall include the lot number of the medication enclosed within. 
Count Three: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 456.42(2), 
F. 5. (2012), by filling and dispensing prescriptions for controlled substances on non-Department 
approved counterfeit-proof prescription pads. 
Count Four: Respondent violated Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Section 893.07(2), 
F.S. (2012), by failing to properly complete DEA Form 222. 
Count Five: Respondent violated Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.140(4) 
F.A.C., by failing to properly maintain compounding records. 

This case was pulled by the Department. 

1-7 Afshin Sadeghi, PS 41434 Bakersfield, CA 
Case No. 2012-04658 — PCP Garcia/Risch 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Count One: Respondent violated Section 465.016(l)(g), F.S. (2008), by furnishing upon prescription an 
ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
requested a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Respondent shall pay a fine of $1,000.00. Respondent shall complete a 
medication error CE within 6 months of final order. 

Page 19 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to accept the recommendations of the Department with 
the amendment that the medication errors CE be completed within 1 year of the final order. Motion 
carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass seconded by Dr. Weizer, to asses costs of $1,258.32. Motion carried. 

1-8 Bonnie Christina Smith, RPT 3325 - Port Saint Lucie, FL 
Case No. 20 13-02273 PCP Weizer/Meshad 

Count One: Respondent violated 456.072(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by being convicted or found guilty of, or 
entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction 
which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

Respondent was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Dr. Martha Brown (Professional Resource Network) was present and advocated on the respondent's 
behalf 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the investigative report into evidence for the 
purposes of imposing a penalty. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to find that respondent was properly served and has 
requested a formal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the findings and facts as set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint. Motion carried, 

Dr. Martha Brown (Professional Resource Network) spoke on behalf of the respondent and stated that she 
has been compliant with her existing PRN contract. Dr. Brown also stated that PRN does not believe she 
is ready to return to practice yet. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to adopt the conclusions of law set forth in the 
Administrative Complaint and find that this constitutes a violation of the Pharmacy Practice Act. Motion 
carried. 

Departments Recommendation: Revocation 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Fallon, for stayed suspension until PRN decides the respondent 
is able to return to practice with reasonable skill and safety. At which time, the respondent shall be 
placed on probation for a period of time to run coterminous with completion of the PRN contract and at 
which time the Board reserves jurisdiction to add future conditions. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to asses costs of $753.57 payable within 90 days of 
reinstatement. Motion carried. 

TAB 5 APPLICATIONS REQUIRING BOARD REVIEW - Debra Glass, BPharm 

A. Examination Applicants 
1. Sandeep Singh, File: 44040 Tampa, FL 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Applicant was not represented by counsel. 

Page 20 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to allow the applicant to sit for the exam. Prior to the 
license being issued, the applicant must receive a PRN evaluation and comply with all conditions required 
by PRN. If a contract with PRN is not required, license will issue. Motion carried. 

2. Marta Walters, File: 44153 San Juan, PR 

Applicant was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the application. Motion carried. 

B. Endorsement Applicants 
1. Darren James Palmer, File: 42962 Ft. Lauderdale, FL 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Applicant was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to grant licensure on the condition that prior to the 
license being issued, the applicant must receive a PRN evaluation and comply with all conditions required 
by PRN. If a contract with PRN is not required, license will issue. Motion carried. 

2. Jonathan Lee, File: 44119 Grantham, NH 

Applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Applicant was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the application. Motion carried. 

C. Pharmacy Intern Applications. 
1. Curtis Michael Drees, File: 19170— Fort Loramie, OH 

Applicant was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Mr. Philip, to deny the application. Motion carried. 

D. Registered Pharmacy Technician Applications. 
1. Andrew Michael Maniscalco, File: 52809 Gainesville, FL 

Applicant was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to require an appearance at one of the next two Board 
meetings. Motion carried. 

2. Jermaine Raymond, File: 51288— St. Petersburg, FL 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to reject the application. Motion carried. 

E. Non-Resident Pharmacy Permit Applications. 
1. PPM, LLC, File: 20164— Oklahoma City, OK 

Page 21 of24 



Ryan Orton (Pharmacy Owner for PPM, LLC) was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Applicant 
was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Mrs. Glass, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the application. Motion carried. 

2. Town & Country Compounding and Consultation Services, LLC. 

John Herr (Owner) was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Respondent was not represented by 
counsel. 

Motion: by Mr. Philip, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to reject the application. Motion carried. 

3. Alicare PC, File: 20159 Lyons, GA 

Robert Driggers (Prescription Department Manager) and Eric Medlock (Technician) were present and 
sworn in by court reporter. Respondent was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the application. Motion carried. 

TAB 6 LICENSURE ISSUES 

A. Request for Termination of Probation 
1. Zhaoqi Zhu, File: 22754 Miami, FL. 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Petitioner was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to accept the request for termination of probation. 
Motion carried. 

2. Anthony M. Pecoraro, File: 21937 Boca Raton, FL 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Petitioner was not represented by counsel. 

Dr. Martha Brown (PRN) advocated for the petitioner. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Mrs. Risch, to accept the request for termination of probation. 
Motion carried. 

3. Jean Jones, File: 11521 Gainesville, FL 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Petitioner was represented by Edwin Bayo, 
Esquire. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to accept the request for termination of probation. 
Motion carried. 

B. Petition for Reinstatement 
1. John Scott Clopton, File: 11949 Silverhill, AL 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Petitioner was not represented by counsel. 

Page 22 of 24 



Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to reinstate the license as well as reinstate the 
petitioner's ability to practice in the state of Florida. Motion carried. 

C. Petition to Relinquish License and to Request an Extension of Payment. 
1. G.M.G. Pharmacy and Discount, Inc., File: 18980 Hialeah, FL. 

Respondent was not present nor represented by counsel. 

No action was taken. 

2. John White, File: 475 Ft. Myers, FL 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Petitioner was not represented by counsel. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Mrs. Risch, to vacate the costs of $880.80. Motion carried with Mr. 
Garcia in opposition. 

D. Motion for Modification of Final Order 
1. AnazaoHealth Corporation Tampa, FL 

Petitioner was present and sworn in by court reporter. Petitioner was represented by Edwin Bayo, 
Esquire. 

Motion: by Dr. Fallon, seconded by Dr. Weizer, to accept the past four successful inspections as meeting 
the requirements of the Final Order. Motion carried. 

TAB 7 INFORMAL LICENSURE HEARINGS 

A. Request to Appeal Notice of Intent to Deny 
1. EntirelyPets Pharmacy, LLC, File: 19899— Union City, CA 

Rashmi Shingari (Owner) was present and sworn in by the court reporter. Applicant was represented by 
Noah Jussim, Esquire. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded Dr. Mikhael, to proceed as an informal hearing. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mikhael, seconded by Dr. Fallon, to uphold the initial denial of the application. Motion 
failed due to a tie vote. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Dr. Mikhael, to allow the applicant to withdraw their application. 
Motion carried. 

EntirelyPets accepted the Board's offer to withdraw their application. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to vacate previous order of intent to deny application. 
Motion carried. 

B. Request to Voluntary Relinquish License 
1. Andrew Brandt, RPT 50740 Clermont, FL. 

This case was pulled to let the Board office accept the Voluntary Relinquishment. 

Page 23 of 24 



END OF CASES. 

The Board members discussed and determined that the February 4-5, 2013 Board of Pharmacy meeting 
will be moved to February 11-12, 2013 with a location to be confirmed later. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded Mrs. Glass to delegate the authority to approve holiday modification of 
hours to the Board chair. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass to delegate signature authority for PCP memorandums to 
the Executive Director. Motion carried. 

Mr. Garcia asked Ms. Non to present the rule changes discussed at the December 3, 2013 Rules 
Committee for a vote. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to remove the sentence in the mitigating and 
aggravating factors subsection of Rule 64B16-30.OO1 that JAPC stated is in conflict with Statute 456.079. 
Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mr. Philip, that there is not an adverse economic impact on small 
business. Motion carried. 

Motion: by Dr. Mesaros, seconded by Mrs. Glass, that the changes will not directly or indirectly increase 
regulatory costs to any entity including government in excess of $200,000.00 in aggregate in Florida 
within one year after the implementation of the rule. Motion carried. 

Mrs. Glass and Dr. Weizer requested that the Chair appoint another member to the Compounding Rules 
Committee. 

Dr. Mesaros appointed Dr. Mark Mikhael to the Compounding Rules Committee. 

The Board acknowledged Mr. Garcia for his great work over the past year serving as the Chairman to the 
Board of Pharmacy. 

Mr. Garcia opened the floor to public comments. 

Motion: by Dr. Weizer, seconded by Mrs. Glass, to ADJOURN the meeting 6:13pm. Motion carried. 

Page 24 of 24 



HEALTA 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216088 

JOHN T READING, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: JOHN T READING 
3407 RIVER GARDEN CIRCLE 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514-8113 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

• 

Executive 
i/BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartnientolHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTH Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naben 

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

January 14, 2014 

PRESTON E MCDONALD 
5740 WESTMONT ROAD 
MILTON, FL 32583 

Re: DOH v. John T Reading 
Case # 201216088 

Dear Preston E Mcdonald: 

I am writing to you concerning the Department of Health's review of certain health care provided by the 

above named health care practitioner. That review included a full investigation and the filing of an 

Administrative Complaint. That review is nearing a conclusion and Board of Pharmacy is scheduled to 

take final disciplinary action in the matter on Wednesday, February 12, 2014. 

This is one of several matters that will be part of the public meeting. You are welcome to attend this 

public meeting, but you are not required to attend, and this is not a request that you attend the meeting. 

Cases shown on the agenda may be heard in a different order or may be heard earlier if all parties are 

present. Cases are scheduled to begin at 9 a.m.; therefore, if you choose to attend it is imperative that 

you arrive promptly at 9 am. and be prepared to remain until the case is heard as cases may be heard 

in a different order than they appear on the agenda. 

Florida law provides that the person who made the complaint to the Department ("complainant") is 

entitled to provide oral or written communication to the Board concerning the alleged violation or the 

appropriate penalty. Likewise, the patient/legal representative in the case who was not the 

"complainant" may request that the Board allow them the same opportunity to provide such written or 

oral communication. The Board has granted such requests. If you have any questions concerning this 

matter, please contact the Department's Prosecution Services Unit prior to the meeting at 

(850)245-4640. Please reference the above case number when calling. 

All final disciplinary actions of the Board are reflected in written orders which are available on the 

Department's website at: . Please allow 30-60 days after the board meeting for 

the posting of these orders. 

Sincerely, 

ive Director 
of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITrER:HeafthyFLA 

4052 Bald Way, Bin Gb Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: I 

1 

Governor 

To protect, prurnote 8 improve the health i 

of all people in Florida through integrated I John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 

V 

Slate Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Ana Gargollo-McDonald, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOH v. John T Reading, R. Ph. l Case Number 2012-16088 

DATE: November 6. 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 

information is provided in this . 
Subject: John T Reading 

Subject's Address of 3407 River Garden Circle 

Record: Pensacola, FL 32514-8113 

Enforcement Address: 3407 River Garden Circle 
Pensacola, FL 32514-8113 

Subject's License No: 10065 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 2099 

Initial Licensure Date: Fifty (50) Year Pharmacist 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): 456.072(1)(k), FS (2012) 
465.016(1)(r), FS (2012) 
465.022(11)(a), FS 

Prior Discipline: 4075, 02/09/1993 

Probable Cause Panel: September 5, 2013; Mesaros & Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Preston E McDonald 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Settlement Agreement 
Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Election of Rights 
Board Notification Letter 

florida Department of Health lortdasHealth.com 
01fic2 of the General CounselS Prosecution Services Unit TWflTER:HeathyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-85 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444' FAX 850f245-4683 



Cost Summary Report 
Probable Cause Memorandum 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: ). FS From $1,500 fine to $2,500 fine and one year probation. 

465.016(lXr), FS : From $1,500 fine to $5,000 and one year suspension for non- 

scheduled legend drugs, or from $5,000 fine and one year probation to revocation for 

scheduled legend drugs. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SECTION 120.57(2) HEARING ) 
This is the hearing in the matter of taking disciplinary action against the licensee and 

case number referenced above. THE ABOVE LISTED PCP MEMBERS ARE EXCUSED 

FROM PARTICIPATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.073(6), F.S. 

TERMS OF : 
1. Appearance 
2. Administrative Fine in the amount of $2,000.00 payable within 90 days 

3. Costs not to exceed $2,063.00 payable within 90 days 



STATE. OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 
v. . CASE NO. 2012-16088 

JOHN T. READING, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 

______________I 

StTTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all.times material to this matter, John T. Reading, Sr., R.Ph., 

was a licensed pharmacist the state of Florida, having, been issued. 

license number PS 10065. Respondent's mailing address of record is 

3407 River Garden Circle, Pensacola, Florida 32514. 

boH v. JOHN 1. READING, R.PH. 
Case Number: 2012-16088 

1 





Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

filed with the Department Clerk. 

7. - The Board of. Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND AND SIXTY- 

THREE ($2,063.00). Total costs shall be assessed when the 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 632O, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is filed 

with the Department Clerk. 

8. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the les promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

9. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a On 
of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

ihcorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

DOH v. 1-IN T. READING, R.PH. 
Case Number: 2012-16088 

3 



a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

10. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

11. PurDose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose àf avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard,.. Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent. prior to, or in. conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law; Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

DOH v. JOHN T. READING, R.PN. 
Case Number: 2012-16088 

4 



the Board 9r any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

12. Not Preclude Addition3l - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Anal Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

13. Waiverof Aftorney's Fees and - waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the :.Depaament in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

14. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

15. Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and..his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

l v. JOHN T. READING, R.PI-i. 
Case Number; 2012-16088 

. 



WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this 28th day of 2013. 

d 

STATE OF lORIDA 

COUNTY OF ESCN4RTA 

Before me personally appeared T, PIThJDfljr,Sr.RPh 
identity is known to me or by , 
(type of identification), and who, under oath, acknowledges 
signature appears above. 

that his 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 2Bthday of 

SE 855468 
March 31,2017 

tSdW&mV.M SnaBW.38S70l9. 

,- 
r.a 

0 tth o - 
— 

DOH JOHN 1. READING, R.PH. 
Case Number: 2012-16088 6 

JQHNJt. READING, R.PH. 
2012-16088 

R.Ph., whose 

Notary Public 
My Commission number: 
My Commission Expires: 



day of , 2013. 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Ana M. Gargollo-McDonald 
Assistant General Counsel 
DON Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Fla. Bar No. 0085907 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 Ext. 8133 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 s 

JOHN ft ARMSTRONG, MD,FACS 
State Surgeon General and 

of Health 

Ana M. G 
Assistant General Counsel 

DOH v. JOHN T. READING, R.PH. 
Case Number: 2012-16088 

7 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETIflONER, 

CASE NO. 2012-16088 

JOHN T. READING, ., RPh, 

RESPONDENT. 

_I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner,: Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, John 1. Reading, Sr., RPh, and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the State of Florida, having been issued license 

number PS 10065. 

Department of Health v. John T. Reading, Sr., RPh I 

Case No. 2012-16088 



3. Respondent's address of record is 3407 River Garden• Circle, 

Pensacola, Florida 32514. 

4. At all times material to this complaint, Respondent was the 

prescription department manager (PDM) of Cantonment Pharmacy (the 

Permittee), located at 433 Highway 29 South, Cantonment, Florida 32533. 

5. Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes, provides that the 

prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's compliance 

with all rules adopted under Chapter 465, Chapter 499, or Chapter 893, 

Florida Statutes, as they relate to the practice of the profession of 

pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs. 

6. Section 465.015(2), Florida Statutes (2012), to sell or dispense 

drugs as defined in Section 465.003(8), Florida Statutes, without first 

being furnished with a prescription. 

7. As the PDM, Respondent was responsible for ensuring the 

Permittee complied with Sections 465.015(2), Florida Statutes (2012). 

8. On or about February 4, 2013, the DeØartment of Health 

Investigator went to Cantonment Pharmacy,. and obtained six (6) 

azlthromycin 250 mg tablets, a prescription only medication, without a valid 

prescription. 

Department of Heafth v. John t Reading, Sr., RPh 
2 

Case No. 2012-16088 



9; Azithromycin is an antibiotic that fights bacteria and is a 

prescription drug. 

10. Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), that 

violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted 

pursuant thereto, constitutes grounds for disciplinary action by the Board 

of Pharmacy. 

11. Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's 

compliance with all rules adopted under Chapter 465, Chapter 499, or 

Chapter 893, Florida Statutes, as they relate to the practice of the 

profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs. 

12. Section 465.015(2)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), it is unlawful for 

any person to sell or dispense drugs as defined in Section 465.003(8), 

• Florida Statutes, without first being furnished with a prescription. 

13. As set forth above in paragraph 8, on or about February 4, 

2013, Respondent failed to ensure the Permittee's compliance with Section 

465.O15(2)(c), Florida Statutes. 

14. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(k), and Section (1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), by 

Department of Health v. John 1. Ing, Sr., 1 
3 

Case No 2012-16088 



violating Section Florida Statutes, by failing to ensure the 

permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they 

relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of 

prescription drugs. 

Department of Health v. John 1. Reading, Sr., RPh 
4 

Case Na. 2012-16088 



• 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MDrFACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Ana M. Gargollo-Mc onald 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Ha. Bar No. 0085907 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 Ext. 8133 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

/AGM. 

PCP: Q/43 
PCP 41 
Department or health v. John t Reading, Sr., RPh 5 

Case No. 2012-16088 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an. order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

2013. 

FILED 
or 

DEPUTY CLEpjç 

tiAle S 12 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in 
accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, té 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine 
witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum 
issued on his or her behalf if a hea ring is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 
Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 

costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456M72(4)., Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Department or Health v. John T. Reading, Sr., RPh 6 
Case No, 2012-16088 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




Time Tracking System Page 1 of I 

1 

Cornjlaint/Case Number: 201216088 MAIN HELP 

Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201216088 

Subject's Name: READiNG, JOHN T 

I 

***** Cost to Date 

Hours Costs 

IComplaint: $32.94] 

tigation: 11.7011 5743.57J l: 1 1 1 1 
********** ********** 

SubTotal: 17.00 S1,273.771 

Expenses to Date: 
] 

j 
prior Amount: 

[ $0.00I 

LTota1 Costs to Date: .771 

l.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKITIMEMASTER.ASP 11/6/2013 



TO: 

FROM: 

MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: 

MEMBERS: 

John T. Reading, Sr., R.Ph. (AMM) 
Case Number: 2012-16088 

CyfiThiiGil?fin, PharuiD and Jeffrey Mesaros 

DATE OF PCP: September 5,2013 - AGENDA ITEM: A-16 
I•e•I•UNI 111111 IIII••NN • • • • UINNU •• I • • N I W INN N NI I•US• u U U IN I 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel -on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 456.072(1)(k), and Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), 
Section 465.022(1 1)(a), Florida Statutes; 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

by violating 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

Date 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Area I, Pensacola Date of Case: 4/8/13 Case Number: PS 2012-16088 
Subject: 
JOHN T. READING SR, RPH 
3407 River Garden Circle 
Pensacola, FL 32514 
(850) 477-2499 

Source: 
PRESTON MCDONALD, RPH 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 
(850) 983-0916 

Prefix: License #: Profession: 
PS 10065 PHARMACIST 

Board: Report Date: 
PHARMACY 7/8/13 

Period of Investigation: 4/17/13-7/8/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: FS 456.072(1)(k) Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee. (n) 
Exercising influence on the or blient for the purpose of financial gain of the licensee or a third party. (dd) 
Violating any provision of this chapter FS 465.015(2) It is unlawful for any person: (c) To sell or dispense drugs without 
first being furnished with a prescription. FS 465.016(1)0) Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, 
including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy. (r) Violating any 
provision of this chapter ... and FS 465.023(1) The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any 
pharmacy permittee, and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline (c) Violated any of the requirements of 
this chapter 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint (Case Summary and Attachments) 
EXHIBIT ) submitted by MCDONALD in regard to READING. MCDONALD, a former pharmacist at 
Cantonment Pharmacy, alleged staff there are dispensing prescription medications without a prescription 
including antibiotics, erectile dysfunction oral tablets (Viagra), albuterol inhalers, and possibly non-controlled 
medications. Allegedly customers come to the pharmacy on a daily basis to purchase Penicillin, Amoxicillin, 
Flagyl, Dif!ucan, and cough syrup with codeine without a prescription from a physician. READING is 
allegedly dispensing these medications without a prescription. On 2/4/13, a Pensacola investigator went to 
the pharmacy and purchased a "Z-Pak" (six Azithromycin 250mg tablets, prescription only medication) and 
24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6Omg/ Tripolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets. On 03/28/13, 
another Pensacola ISU staff member went to the pharmacy and purchased loraseptic with Lidocaine 
added (which requires a prescription) and 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride GOmg/ Tripolidine 
Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets. The pharmacist was not identified on 2/4/13 or 3/28/13. 

READING was notified of the investigation by letter dated 4/17/13 EXHIBIT ) and was provided a copy of 
the Case Summary and originating documents from Exhibit 1. 

A check of boii computer Iicensure records revealed READING is currently licensed asa PHARMACIST. 
READING earned his Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy from Sanford University in Birmingham, AL (year not 
indicated) per the resume included with his response EXHIBIT . 
No patients were identified; therefore, patient notification was not required. 

READING SR. is not known to be represented by an attorney in this matter 

On 5/7/13 by US mail, Investigator LANIER received READING statement dated 5/4/13 EXHIBIT . 
READING denied the allegations. 

Related Case: RPT 2012-16092, RPT 2012-16089, PH 2012-16087, PS 2012-16091, PS 2012-16090, PS 
Investi ator/Date: 1 

4bc 
Ben Lanier, 21-35, Investigator Supervisor 
Distribution: HQ/ISU JIJI. 0 9 ?fl3 1 

,— C) 
F') . 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 201 2-1 6088 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I.. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER. 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3-5 

Interview of PRESTON E. MCDONALD, RPh (Source) 6 
Interview of BENJAMIN FENN, RPh (Witness) 6-8 
Interview of SUSAN HALFEN, RPh (Witness) 5 
Interview/Statement of JOHN T. READING, SR., (Exhibit 8) 8-10 

IV. EXHIBITS 
1. Case Summary, corrected Case Summary, & Attachments 11-19 

2. Copy of Notification Letter dated 4/17/13 with enclosures 20-27 

3. Copy of letter dated 4/17/13 to MCDONALD 28 

4. Copy of letter dated 5/16/13 to READING providing a correctedCase Summary 29-30 

5. Copy of previous inspections dated 9/22/09, 10/18/10, and 1/23/12 31-33 

6. Copy of pictures on CD (13 images) 34-46 

7. Copy of the "Cantonment Wine" Formula 47-48 

8. READING's response dated 5/4/13 49-61 

/9. Confidential Index 62 

FORM3C0 .2- 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-16088 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

On 2/4/13, Investigator LANIER drove to Cantonment Pharmacy. Upon entering the pharmacy, "EMILY" the 
cashier asked how she could help. Investigator LANIER stated he had a sinus infection and EMILY told 
Investigator LAMER to go to the pharmacy consultation window. Investigator LANIER walked to the 
consultation window and a man, without a name tag, presumably the pharmacist, with short brown hair and a 
goatee asked how he could help. Investigator LANIER told him that he had a sinus infection and a swollen 
throat. Investigator LAMER told him that a friend of his had the same thing recently and a Z-pak seemed to 
help. The pharmacist asked if Investigator LANIER wanted a Z-pak and Investigator LANIER told him yes. 
The pharmacist asked if Investigator LANIER was taking any kind of Antihistamine and Investigator LAMER 
told him no. The pharmacist told Investigator LANIER to also purchase an Antihistamine to clear up his 
sinuses. Investigator LANIER told him that funds were limited and the man said it would be roughly $31.00 in 
total. There was no counseling offered on how to take either the Z-pak or Antihistamine. EMILY assisted 
Investigator LANJIER check out and asked for Investigator LANIER's driver's lidense. EMILY wrote down 
Investigator LANIER's name, address, and driver's license number in a book. Then Investigator LANIER 
signed the log and left the pharmacy. While in the pharmacy Investigator LANJIER did not see a sign offering 
the sale of Viagra. A "Z-pak" (six Azithromycin 250mg tablets, prescription only medication) and 24 Aprodine 
(Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6Omg/Triprolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets were provided• by the 
pharmacist. 

On 3/28/1 3, Investigator Supervisor CATHY MARTIN presented to Cantonment Pharmacy with complaints of 
lingering cough and sore throat. The cashier immediately instructed Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to go the 
pharmacy window. A man with short brown hair and a goatee, presumably the pharmacist but with no name 
tag, asked what symptoms were present. The symptoms were repeated to the pharmacist, and he instructed 
Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to select a bottle of Chloraseptic. He stated, with a wink, that he would add 
an ingredient to relieve the symptoms. He asked if Investigator Supervisor MARTIN was taking any 
decongestants, and Investigator Supervisor MARTIN responded no. He asked no other questions. A 
selection of the orange flavored Chioraseptic was made and.lnvestigator MARTIN returned to the pharmacy 
window. The pharmacist stated that tha orange flavor was not very good and to go back and get the red 
bottle. Investigator MARTIN did so. The pharmacist took the bottle, and a few minutes later he passed a 
white paper bag with contents to the cashier. The pharmacist stated that he added Lidocaine to the 
loraseptic. The cashier instructed Investigator MARTIN to approach the counter and provide a driver 
license. Investigator Supervisor MARTIN did so, and the cashier copied information from the driver license to 
a worn green ledger. The cashier then instructed Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to enter 
information in the log and sign where indicated. Investigator MARTIN did so. During this process, Investigator 
MARTIN asked what the purpose of the log was, and the cashier stated it was for the Sudafed pills being 
provided. Investigator MARTIN also asked for the pharmacist's name, and the cashier provided a first name 
of "Gene." She informed the total was $11.10, and Investigator Supervisor MARTINI provided the cashier a 
$50 bill. Change of $38.90 was provided, and Investigator Supervisor MARTIN thanked the cashier and the 
pharmacist and left. The cost of the loraseptic was $5.12, and a blue bottle with 24 small white pills was 
also provided for a cost of $5.98. No prescriptions were presented to the pharmacy, and no instructions for 
taking the medications were provided. loraseptic with Lidocaine added (which requires a prescription) and 
24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6Omg/Triprolidine Hydrochloride 2:5mg) tablets were provided 
by the pharmacist. The pharmacist was not identified on 2/4/13 or 3/28/13. 

Thirteen pictures of these medications and receipts from both purchases are provided on CD and included as 
EXHIBIT 6. 

FORM 300 7/02 
. Paqe .3. 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 201 2-16088 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT I is information forwarded by the Consumer Services Unit (CSU) with the complaint. This information 
consists of a Case Summary, corrected Case Summary, complaint form by MCDONALD, and the following: 

Complaint narrative by MCDONALD noting he was previously employed at Winn-Dixie pharmacy 
locafed nearby Cantonment Pharmacy. While at work on many occasions, he would have customers 
ask if he could sell them antibiotics. It was explained to them that a prescription was required, and 
their response was always that they could obtain them from Cantonment Pharmacy. MCDONALD did 
not believe the customers for the most part, contributing it to Cantonment Pharmacy selling something 
to the customers and telling them it worked almost as good as antibiotics. Through: diverging 
circumstances, MCDONALD became employed at Cantonment Pharmacy as a pharmacist. The 
first day at work not long alter they opened, a customer came up and asked him: for, antibiotics. 
MCDONALD told the customer that they had to have a prescription for antibiotics. Throughout theday 
about six different customers asked him for antibiotics and without fail, every day to this date, he had 
customers telling him they had purchased antibiotics in the past from one registered pharmacy 
technician (RPT1) or sometimes another registered pharmacy technician (RPT2) was mentioned, and 
that they would like to purchase some more. MCDONALD refused and always told the customers that 
a prescription was required. Antibiotics mentioned to MCDONALD that customers had purchased in 
the past included Penicillin, Amoxicillin, Z-Pak, Keflex, Flagyl, and Diflucan. As corroborating evidence 
of this practice of selling antibiotics without a prescription to customers, there are large bottles of 1 Amoxicillin, and SMZ-TMP on a counter near the counseling window, which is outside of the 
area of stock of all other medications, and separate from its normal location (for filling prescriptions). 

MCDONALD also had several male customers ask to purchase Viagra tablets, stating that they had 
bought them in the past from RPT1 or sometimes RPT2 .and wanted some more. MCDONALD refused 
and always told the customers a prescription was required. MCDONALD stated there are handwritten 
signs above/below the Viagra tablets on the prescription stpck area of "$24" which indicated that 
customers are charged $24.00 for each Viagra tablet (sold without a prescription). MCDONALD also 
had a customer come to the counseling window and ask him for an Albuterol inhaler. After 
MCDONALD explained that a prescription was needed, the customer stated that he had purchased 
them before from RPT1 and RPT2, and he became irate that MCDONALD would not sell him an 
Albuterol inhaler. 

Finally, MCDONALD alleged there is a well-known practice in the community that Cantonment 
Pharmacy sells a "cough syrup" that is mixed at the pharmacy which contains codeine. This is a C-V 
medication that can be legally sold without a prescription, but it can only be sold by a pharmacist. 
MCDONALD had several customers tell him they wanted that special "cough syruØ" they got from 
RPT1 or RPT2 in the past. MCDONALD witnessed it being sold to customers by a clerk without 
consultation of the pharmacist on duty. MCDONALD stated it was a common practice for RPTI to give 
medical advice to customers and otherwise infer to customers that he was a licensed pharmacist, and 
to also sell them prescription medications without a prescription. This was also the case for RPT2, 
although to a lesser extent. 

MCDONALD listed the licensed employees of the pharmacy who were allegedly guilty of dispensing 
medications without a prescription. These employees allowed RPT1 to portray himself as a licensed 
practitioner prescriber or pharmacist. This technician was allowed to perform duties only allowed by 

0 7/02 Pane 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-1 6088 

law'to be performed by a licensed practitioner prescriber or pharmacist such as 1) diagnosing patients 
and prescribing prescription medications by virtue of selling the prescription medications to customers 
without a valid prescription, 2)' giving medical advice to customers without consultation of a licensed 
pharmacist, 3) holding himself as a pharmacist, 4) acting/speaking as a pharmacist over the telephone 
to other pharmacists in the transfer of prescriptions, without identifying himself as a pharmacy 
technician, 5) individually selling C-V medications (i.e., cough syrup with codeine) to customers without 
involvement, consultation, and approval of a pharmacist. MCDONALD noted that the primary principal 
or violator was RPT1, who had for many years acted as a pharmacist and performed pharmacist-only 
duties. The owner of the pharmacy is listed as the pharmacist-in-charge, who has a legal responsibility 
in developing and enforcing policies and procedures for the pharmacy. It is extremely difficult to 
believe that the owner, although absent from the day to day operations of the pharmacy, is not aware 
of the, violations occurring on a daily basis. The two most recent. pharmacists employed by the 
pharmacy are also participants in these violations by virtue of allowing them to occur while on duty and 
failing to report them. MCDONALD did not know if those two pharmacists were guilty of selling 
medications that require a prescription without one, or just knowingly allowed such. MCDONALD 
stated the pharmacy technicians were not identifying themselves when answering or speaking on the 
phone and did not regularly wear name tags/badges that readily identify themselves as pharmacy 
technicians. MCDONALD stated the pharmacy is also in violation by not having an easily accessible 
sink near the prescription counter. 

EXHIBIT 3 is a copy of a letter dated 4/17/13 to MCDONALD informing him of the status of the case. 

EXHIBIT 4 is a copy of a letter dated 5/16/13 to READING providing a corrected Case Summary. The original 
Case Summary made two references to Hydrocodone which should have read Hydrochloride. 

EXHIBIT 5 is copies of three previous inspection forms dated 9/22/09, 10/18/10, and 1/23/12 for inspections 
conducted 'at Cantonment Pharmacy printed by Investigator LANIER on 4/18/13. The three previous 
inspections indicate passing results; however, the inspection form dated 9/22/09 indicated there were some 
improperly labeled medications found. 

EXHIBIT 6 is a copy of thirteen pictures placed on CD by Investigator LANIER. The pictures are of 
prescription medications purchased from Cantonment Pharmacy by Pensacola ISU staff on 2/4/13 and 
3/28/1 3, and the respective receipts, dispensed without providing a prescription. The medications consist of a 
"Z-pak" (six Azithromycin 250mg tablets, prescription. medication), 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine 
Hydrochloride 6Orrig/Triprolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets, loraseptic with Lidocaine added (which 
requires a prescription), and 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6Omg/Triprolidine Hydrochloride 
2.5mg) tablets. 

EXHIBIT 7 is a copy of the formula for the 'Cantonment Wine" provided by BENJAMIN FENN, RPH, on 
4/26/13 to Investigator LANIER at the Pensacola ISU office. 

IMV FORM 102 . . ...5. 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-16088 

INTERVIEW OF PRESTON MCDONALD, RPH (PS : 
Address of Record: 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 
(850) 983-0916 

On 11/26/12, Investigator LANIER interviewed MCDONALD by telephone. MCDONALD stated he quit 
working at the pharmacy close to a month prior. MCDONALD stated the pharmacy did not keep a record of 
the medications that customers were buying. MCDONALD statedthe cough syrup did not contain full strength 
codeine and it did not require a prescription, but a pharmacist had to be involved. MCDONALD state 
Registered Pharmacy Technicians were also providing the cough syrup to customers. MCDONALD stated he 
could not specifically remember any patient names. 

INTERVIEW OF BENJAMIN FENN, RPH (PS : 
• Address of Record: 
6212 Kristen Dr. 
Pensacola, FL 3250k 
(850) 476-7132 

Employment: Cantonment Pharmacy 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

FENN stated he worked full time at Cantonment Pharmacy on Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Fridays. 
FENN stated he talked the owner into hiring MCDONALD because he was retiring and FENN was only going 
to be the on call/relief pharmacist. FENN stated that he was now completely retired; however, if anyone from 
Cantonment Pharmacy called and asked for him to work a shift that he would. FENN stated Cantonment 
Pharmacy was the only community pharmacy in Cantonment for about 30 years. FENN stated he was guilty 
of all of it." FENN stated he did provide customers with prescription medications without a prescription. FENN 
stated he helped a lot of sweet black people who would come in mainly with toothaches and ask him for 
Penicillin. FENN stated he would sell them about a dozen Penicillin tablets to help them. FENN stated he 
wanted to help people who did not have insurance or who did not havea lot of money. FENN stated he never 
diagnosed people. FENN would also sell Diflucan to women who were experiencing vaginal problems. FENN 
stated that during his time there, READING did this for a lot of customers. FENN stated Cantonment 
Pharmacy was a family pharmacy that helped out the community. FENJN stated this behavior -had to stop 
because the times have changed. FENN stated the pharmacy did keep a price right below the Viagra which 
noted that each pill was $28.00. FENN stated that was also done for the Cialis and Levitra, FENN stated the 
pharmacy was not making any money off the Viagra because they sold it at cost. FENN stated he also sold 
Amoxicillin without a prescription. FENN stated he had seen every employee that worked there do it as well, 
even the pharmacy techs. FENN stated he had seen PH2, READING, RPT1, and RPT2, all do it. FENN 
stated RPT2 was READING's grandson. FENN stated there was a new pharmacist PH3 that was working 
there. FENN stated he could not recall PH3s last name, but that he had it written down and he would call 
Investigator LANIER with the last name. FENN stated Investigator LANIER would not believe how many 
marriages he thought he saved by selling the Viagra. FENN stated Viagra could be purchased online 

NVFORM3007/a2 • 
• •-Paqe6 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-1 6088 

and provided Investigator LAN IER with a number of (800) 530-6596 to verify it. FENN stated he also thought 
he had wiped out Syphilis with the antibiotics he sold. FENN stated customers would also come in and ask for 
extra tablets of what they were already taking and staff, mainly RPTI, would check to see if they had already 
been previously prescribed the medication before providing it to them. FENN stated he felt taken advantage 
of by the customers as well becausehe would help someone ut one time and they would keep coming back 
after that. FENN stated he did not want to make people mad. FENN stated they also sell "Cantonment Wine" 
(cough syrup). FENN stated every staff member sold the Cantonment Wine, even the cashiers. FENN stated I and his nieces would premix a large container of the cough syrup. The container was approximately 
480cc. FENN stated the cashiers would sell it to their church friends etc. FENN stated it was legal for them to 
sell it without a prescription. FENN stated he had the formula for the cough syrup written down and he 
provided a copy to Investigator LANIER EXHIBIT . FENN stated that basically the cough syrup contained 
Codeine, Guaifenesin, and Benadryl. FENN stated they did keep a log of who the cough syrup was sold to 
because it contained Codeine. FENN stated the pharmacy techs also sold it and he had to take the blame for 
that as well because they did it under his watch. FENN stated the cough syrup has been sold there for 30 
years. FENN stated RPT1 told him not to worry about it because there was not enough Codeine in it to do 
anything. RPTI told FENN someone could drink the whole bottle and not feel any affects. FENN stated he 
did not trust anyone anymore with Codeine. FENN stated RPTI was also a federal attorney, but FENN did not 
believe he was licensed as such anymore. FENN stated RPT1. told him that he was going to get them all out 
of trouble and that he planned to represent all of them. FENN stated he thought RPT1 wanted to protect him, 
but he did not feel comfortable with that. FENN stated he wanted to confess his sins and get this off of his 
mind. FENN stated he was just trying to help people but that it had to come to an end because the times had 
changed. FENN stated he had spent his whole life trying to help people and that he did not regret it. FENN 
stated he was now retired and glad, but he still did not want to have to go to Tallahassee and lose his license. 
FENN stated he never received any complaints from patients or customers or other pharmacists until now. 

FENN stated this activity could have resulted in adverse problems and that he understood that. FENN stated 
someone could have been allergic to the medication that was dispensed to them. FENN stated he believed 
MCDONALD filed this complaint because READING offered to sell MCDONALD the pharmacy for two million 
dollars, but they withdrew the offer because MCDONALD wanted to turn their pharmacy into a compounding 
pharmacy. FENN stated he did not want to lose his license but that he would be fine with it if it was necessary 
because he was guilty. FENN stated he refused to sell to some customers because he was not familiar with 
them, but he thought some customers were dear friends of READING because the customers would call 
READING and then READING would call FENN at the pharmacy and tell him to sell to them, so he did. FENN 
asked to pray with Investigator LANIER for forgiveness of his sins. FENN stated he never dispensed the 
morning-after pill because he did not want to kill babies. FENN stated the pharmacy had recently gotten in 
trouble with the DEA. FENN stated the pharmacy was filling prescriptions for a doctor had her patients sign a 
contract noting they would only get their prescriptions filled at Cantonment Pharmacy. FENN stated another 
doctor was writing for a lot of tablets on most all of his prescriptions. FENN stated when the DEA came in, 
they told READING Sr. they were selling way too much Oxycontin and READING gave up their DEA license 
without any argument. FENN stated he was just trying to keep READING alive these days and really thinks he 
needs to sell the pharmacy. FENN thanked Investigator LANIER for his time and asked that prayers be said 
for him, 

On the same date, FENN telephoned Investigator LANIER and provided PH3's last name. 

On 5/6113, Investigator LANIER attempted to telephone FENN; however, he was not available and there was no 
voicemail option. On 5/7/1 3, FENN telephoned Investigator LANIER and stated he had seen that he missed the 

INV FORM 300 7/02 Pane 7 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-16088 

call. Investigator LANIER explained to FENN that a statement was received with his name on it that seemed to 
provide a conflicting response as to what was discussed on 4/26/13. FENN stated he never saw or read the 
statement, but allowed RPT1 to write it for him. Investigator LANIER informed FENN that the statement had his 
name at the bottom of it, as if it was written by him. FENN stated he did not want to tell RPTI that he had 
already talked with Investigator LANIER about this matter. FENN that what he had previously told 
Investigator LANIER at the ISU office was the truth. FENN stated Cantonment Pharmacy was a family pharmacy 
and every employee had sold prescription medications without a prescription, FENN stated RPT2 was spoiled 
and that READING still called him "sugar boy." FENN stated he was not sure where RPT2 had received his 
education but READING trained him. FENN stated Cantonment Pharmacy was the only place RPT2 could get a 
job. FENNt PH2, RPT2, RPT1 and READING had all sold prescription medications without a prescription. 
FENN opined that PH3 had done the same; however, he never worked with or witnessed him do it because PH3 
started after FENN retired. FENN stated this happened with various medications but no controlled substances. 
FENN stated Viagra, Z-paks, and other antibiotics were sold without prescriptions. FENN stated he had even 
sold things in the past to Sheriff's deputies, etc, but Umes were changing. FENN stated he went along with 
everything at the pharmacy but should not have. FENN stated the pharmacy kept hiring older people because 
the young pharmacists did not want to do business the way they did. FENN stated the pharmacy was run by 
incompetents and that FENN had tried to hold everything together. FENN stated that apparently he "could not 
get out of their fast enough before he was caught." FENN stated he knew this was going to happen someday. 
FENN stated the only thing wrong in MCDONALD's complaint was that FENN had always seen the tech's wear 
name tags. 

INTERVIEW OF SUSAN HALFEN, RPH (PS : 
Employment: Winn-Dixie 
1550 Hwy 29 North 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-3318 

On 5/10/13 and 5/14/13, Investigator LANIER attempted to telephone HALFEN; however, she was not 
available and voicemail messages were left requesting a return call. 

On 5/15/13, HALFEN returned the call and left a voicemail message for Investigator LANIER stating she was 
working all day on this date, but that she should be available for Investigator LANIER to call. On the same date, 
Investigator LANIER returned the call. HALFEN stated she had been a pharmacist at Winn-Dixie for about six 
years and that their location was very close to Cantonment Pharmacy. HALFEN stated that since she started 
working at Winn-Dixie pharmacy, one to two customers come in every month or so to try and get prescription 
medications without a prescription. HALFEN stated these customers were mainly seeking antibiotics and told her 
that they had gotten them in the past without a prescription from Cantonment Pharmacy. HALFEN stated she 
also knew Cantonment Pharmacy provided a cough syrup. HALFEN stated she knew pharmacists were allowed 
to sell the cough syrup. HALFEN stated that was all she really knew about Cantonment Pharmacy's operation. 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF JOHN T. READING, SR., : 
Address of Record: 
3407 River Garden Circle 
Pensacola, FL 32514 
(850) 477-2499 

07/02 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: Ps 2012-16088 

Employment: Cantonment Pharmacy 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

On 5/7/13 by US mail, Investigator LANIER received READING's statement dated 5/4/1 3. READING earned his 
Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy from Sanford University in Birmingham, AL (year not indicated) per the resume 
included with his response EXHIBIT . 
READING denied the allegations and stated MCDONALD was a serial liar. READING stated the nature of the 
complaint was inappropriate prescribing. READING asked. that his resume be read and to note the details of the 
last few years of medical issues and the fact that he had not been the pharmacist on duty for more than a few 
hours or more for about a dozen times in the last five or more years. READING denied prescribing anything that 
was not permitted under Florida law. 

READING stated he would be happy to face MCDONALD in person in an interview setting now that he.knew 
what a liar he is, 'also an anti-Semitic slug. READING questioned his employees and he apparently never 
left the prescription department except for bathroom breaks and possibly sandwich break. That means that 
anything that he had accused his employees of doing, was done either at his direction, in his presence, or with 
his approval. 

READING stated that he had spent a couple of hours in the pharmacy with MCDONALD showing him around, 
explaining very specifically that everyone is trained that the pharmacist is the boss at all times, no matter how his 
staff might customarily do their job. MCDONALD has a good motivation to try to cause trouble for his business. 
He had worked, until terminated, at Winn-Dixie near them for a few years. MCDONALD knew they had a good 
business. When MCDONALD was terminated (from Winn-Dixie), he inquired if READING would sell him the 
business. At READING's age, it did come to mind once in a while and he told him that he would sell it for $2 
million dollars, but he would be crazy to buy any pharmacy without putting in• some time at the pharmacy. 
MCDONALD was invited to come to work forthem and look things over, for his period of evaluation that he 
recommended. This was certainly not something READING would have done if the pharmacy was operated in 
any degree along the lines that he has alleged, BELATEDLY. 

READING stated he emphasized BELATEDLY, because after accepting his offer to come and work with his staff 
and meet their patients, they arranged for a banker to meet with READING's C.P.A to go over their books. 
MCDONALD came back with an offer to purchase (after having worked at the pharmacy and after having the 
books examined at his expense) that was about one-forth of what READING had asked initially. READING 
expected a significantly lower counter offer but nothing as ridiculous as MCDONALD came back with., - 
MCDONALD has said thét hi would be satisfied if READING's license was revoked and he was fined. 
READING stated there was nothing in the record to justify such a vindictive attitude or request that would make 
sense to a normal person, especially considering his age and acuity. This is just a belly-full of bile that 
MCDONALD has as a result as a frustrated purchaser and an anti-Semite. 

READING also provided the following: 
• Emergency Declaration by Governor RICK SCOTT 
• Memo to employees regarding theft and behavior 
• Stare Policy Manual Procedures Rule Book 

Paqe 9 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2012-16088 

• .. Memo noting the filling of out of town prescriptions was restricted 
• Letter dated 7/18/12 notingan employee had: tendered their resignation and MCDONALD Would be the 

pharmacist's replacement. 
• Newspaper editoriàlon READING 

On 5/14/13, Investigator LANIER interviewed READING• by telephone. READING stated he did write the 
response that was provided and he was wondering if Investigator LANIER had received it. READING stated he 
could not honestly say what took place in the pharmacy on a daily basis because he had only visited the 
pharmacy a handful of times in the last couple years. READING stated he was a 53 year pharmacist and that he 
still received a paycheck because he was the owner, but that he had been in and out of the Mayo clinic for a 
couple of years. 

INV EORMIOO.7/02 . Paae-1-O . . . - 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: Rick Scott 
To protect promote & improve the health 

_________________ 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEA6LTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

April17, 2013 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Preston E. McDonald, RPH 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 

Reference Number: PS 2012-1 6088 
Subject: John T. Reading, RPH 

Dear Mr. McDonald: 

Please be advised that the Investigative Services Unit is conducting an investigation on John T. 
Reading, RPH, and I am the investigator assigned to your case. 

Florida law requires that all information in a complaint remain confidential until 10 days after probable 
cause is found. Patient names and records are never released to the public. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in 
Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. If you have any questions, please call 
me at (850) 475-5470. In addition, if you have any concerns or suggestions about our complaint 
process, please uilF-out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions form at 

Sincerely, 
'2 

Ben Lanier 
Investigator 

Florida Department of Health i www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality AssuranceS Investigative Services Unit - Pensacola 

- ITTER:HealthyFLA 
•-.-50i•6-Nortk Davis FL-3-250a---- 

PHONE: 850/475-5474 VOUTUBE: lidoh 

Exhibit 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


WWW.D01'I STATE FL. US 

I have read and have bad this inspection report and the laws arid regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm thai the intormaton given herein Is true and correct to the best of my knowledge, 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Benjamin Fenn, RPh 

Institutional Representative 
NV 359 RevisedO1/07 Replaces 12/02 

Exhibit 

FUe # 498 

nsp # 86062 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES ITy' PHARMACY 

ROUTINE OltriNot CC NEW CURRENTLY NOT OPeRATING fl CHANGE IIER 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY -CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection form should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
2748 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
912 2/2009 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
AC5573767 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

JOHNT READING STREETADDRESS 
433 HIGHWAY 29S 

TELEPHONE# I EXT. 
850-968-2469 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
CANTONMENT 27 

STATE/ZIP 
32533-1401 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE 4 
10085 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 4 
Monday I Tuesday JWednesdayj Thursday I Friday I Saturday Sunday 

Open 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am closed 
Close 

I 
6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 3pm 

1. Benjamin Fenn PS 13028 

2.Johnny Reading PTech 

3. Karen Bonanno PTech 
SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

1 Current pharmacy permit displayed. (465.015(1)(a)F5,] 26 All medicinal drug Rx's require dale dispensed. 
16-28.14C(3Xb)2,F.A.C.] 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current Rx department 
manager. 465.018.F.S.] 

27 Prescription records identi& the responsible dispensing pharmacists. o 
3 C 28 Complete pharmacy prescription records. 64816-26.140,F.A.C.] Z C 
4 Rx department hours open for business are posted and are a minimum C of 40 hours perweek. 64516-28.404, F.A.C.] 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 648 16-27.600,F.A.C.] Z C 
5 Interns properly registered and supervised. 465.01 3.F.S.] C 649 16-26.400(4),F.A.C.] 30 Controlled substance records readily retrievable. (893.07.F.S.] C 

Pharmacy technicians properiy Identified and supervised. C 816-27.410,F.A.C.] 
31 Initials ot pharmacist filling controlled substance Hit. 

893.04(lXc)6,F.S.3 Z C 
7 Proper pharmacist technician ralio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 

Board ofPharmacy approval. 64816-27.410] 64816—27.42C, F,A.C.] 
32 Prescribers name/address/DEA 4 on all controlled substance Pc. 

893.04(lXc)2,F.S.] Z C 
8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. 

ICO(1)F.A.Cj 33 Patients name/address on controlled substance Rx. 
893.04(lXc)l,F.S,] C 

9 Pharmacist on dutywhen Pit department open, 64816-2S.109,F.A.C. Z C 34 Date controlled substance Pit was tIled on R,c. 

893.04(lXc)6,F.S.] C 
IC Generic drug sign displayed. 465.025(7),F.S.] Z C 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed. C quantity and directions for use (89304(lXc)4,F.5.] 
11 Sign displayed 'Pa Dept CloseC if establishment is open and Pit 

Department closed. 164B16-28.109(1),F.A.C.] 
36 Date of refills written on controlled substance Pit or on computer records. 

893.04(lXc)6F.S.] C 
12 Sign with meal break hours of Pharmacist. (no more than half tour), and 

stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon z n C request. 64B16-27.400(6),F.A.C.]' 

Pharmacsfs initrals on controlled substance Pit retlis. z C 893.04(1)( O)6,F.S.] 

13 Sign desIgnating the private patient consultation area z 64916-28.1C35,F.A.C,] 
36 Controlled substance retlis limited s whhin 6 monihs from date 

prescription was signed. Z C 
14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patients. ] 39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 

(or Inspection. (893.C7(1)(a),F.S.] 
15 Adequate patient counseling by pharmacist when offer is accepted. 

40 DEA 222 order forms property completed. (893 07(2).F ] C 6481 6-27.820,F.A.C.] 
16 P.s . has sinldrunning water convenient to Pit dept. 41 Controlled substance Pit intormatlon in computer system is retrievable. 

64B16-28.102,F.A.C,] CFR 1306.22] 893.07,F.S] 64Bl6-28.140,F.A.C.y C Z C 
17 Prescription department has drug refrigeration storage. 

64816-28.104,F.A.C.J 
42 Controiled substance records maintained for 2 years, C CFR 1304.04 & 1306.22] 893.07(4)(b),F.S.] 

18 Prescription department clean and safe. 645I6-28.105,F.A.C.] Z fl 43 Schedule V drug records/sales properiy kept. 893.08(3)(a).F.S.] C 
19 Pa balance and weights or electronic balance, counting tray or other 

C Ceriifed daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. suitable counting device; assortment of graduates/spatulas/mortar and 
64816-28.14C(3)(c) OR (e),F.A.C.] pestles. 64816-28,107(2)(a-d),F.A.C.] 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in 
45 RegIstered pharmacist properly prescribing 64816-27.21 0.F.A.C.] C C a readily available electronic data format 916-28.107(l), F.A.C.] 

21 Medication properly labeled 64516-27.l01,F.A.C.] fl 46 Compounding records properly maintained 64B16-28.140(4),F.A.C.J * C C 
22 All Ra medication within the Pit department. 64816-28.120(1),F.A.C.] 47 Unitdose records properly maintained 64816-27,410(1), F.A,C.1* C 0 
23 CCI Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings z 0 (protected under 766101,FS,] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.I 
24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock 0 64816-28.110, FA,C,] 

25 Discard 
Quesfions with may be answered ri/a (not applicable). 

Remarks: Missy Shores PTech. #3 DEA expires 8-31-201 1. #5 NA. #7 Tech ratio letter 6-22-i994. #21 Two bottles of OTC drug in pharmacy stock without expiration date. #23 Last 
COl meeting 9-15-2009. #39 CS inventory 5-1-2009. #44 Logbook. Pit drug purchases from Smith Drug, AmerisouroeBergen, Masters, & Top Pit. 

09-22-2009 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

iD ci2O 



Institutional Representative 
INV 359 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

WWW.D OH STATE. FL.US 

File # 498 

nsp# 94915 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES iTY PHARMACY 

ROUTINE CHANGE LOG NEW CURRENTLY NOT CHANGE OWNER fl 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note: If establishment is engaged rI parenleral/enteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection torn should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
2748 

DATE OF INSPECTION 010 
DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 

AC 5 573767 
PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

JOHN T READING STREET ADDRESS 
433 HIGHWAY 29 S 

TELEPHONE # I EXT. 
850-968-2489 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
CANTONMENT 127 

STATE/ZIP 
32533-1401 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
10065 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday I Tuesday Iwednesdayl Thursday 

J 

Friday I Saturday 
I 

Sunday 1. Beniamin Fenn PS 13028 
Open 

J 

9am 
I 

9am 
I 

gem 9am 
- J 

9am 
I 

9am dosed 
Close 6pm 6pm 6pm 8pm 6pm 3pm 

2.WiItOn Glover PS 7751 

3. Melissa Shores RPT 21008 
SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

1 Current pharmacy pernnil displayed. 465.015(lXa),r,S,] 26 All medicinal drug RrCs require date dispensed. 
64616'28.140(3)(b)2,F.A.C.] N 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified In writing of current St department 
manager. 465.018,F.S.] 

27 Prescripllon records identify the responsible dispensing pharmacists, 
64B16-26.140(3Xb)7,F.A.C.] N E 

3 Current DEA registration. 2ICFR 1301.11] ]465.023(lXc),F.S.] N 28 Complete pharmacy prescrIption records. t64B16-28.140,F.A.C.J N E 
4 St departmenl hours open for business sre posted and are a minImum 

N of 40 hours perweek. 64816-28.404, LAO.] 29 Pharmacy maintains patent profile records. 64616-27.800,F.A.C.7 E 
Interns properly registered end supervsad. [ 

30 Controlled substance records readily retrievable. 893.07.F.S.] 6491 6-26.400(4),F.A.C.] 
6 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 31 ls of pharmacist filling controlled substance Pt. 

893.o4(lXc)6,F.S.] N E 
7 Proper pharmaoist technician ratio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 32 Prescriber's name/address/DEe # on all controlled substance St. 

Board of Pharmacy approval. 64316-27.410) 64B16-27.420, F.A.C.3 693.04(lxc)2,F.Si N E 
Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed, 33 Pafierits neme/address on controlled substance Rx. 
64B16-27.100(1)F,A,C.} 893.O4(1)(c)1,F.S.] N D 

9 Pharmacist on duty when Rx deparlment open. 64916-28.109,F,A,C. N 34 Date conirolled substance St was filed on Pa. 
893.04(l)(c)6,F.S.) N D 

10 Generic drug sign displayed. 465.025(7),F.S.] N 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed. 
quantity and directions for use. 893.D4(lgc)4,F.S.) N D 

11 Sign displayed "Pa Dept Closed' if establishment is open and St 36 Date of refills written on controlled substance Sic or on computer records. 
Department closed. 64B16-25.109(l).F,A.C,] 893.04(tXc)6,F.S.] N E 

12 Sign with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour), and 
stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon 
request. 16-27.400(6),F.A.C.r 

37 Pharmacist's initials on controlled substance St refills. 
893.04(1)( c)6,F.S.] N E 

13 SIgn designating the private patent consultation area ] 36 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 within 6 monlhs from dale 
prescription was signed, 693.D4(IXg).F.S.] N D 

14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patents. ] 39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 
for Inspection. 893.07(lNa),F.S.] N E 

15 Adequate patient counseling by phannacistwhen offer is accepted. 
40 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07(2),F.S.] N fl 64616-27.820, F AC.) 

16 Rx dept. has sink/running water convenient to St dept. 
16-28.1C2,F.A.C.] 

41 Controlled substance St information In computer system is retrievable. 
CFR 1306.22] 893.07,F,S] 64B16-28.140,F.A,C.]' E N E 

17 Prescription department has drug refrigeration storage. 
816-28.104,F.A.C.] 

42 Controlled substance records maintained for2 year& 
CFR 1304.04 & 1306.22] t93.07(4)(b),F.S.) N 

18 Prescription department clean and safe. 64316-28.105.F.A.C.] 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. 893.06(3Xa),F.S.1 N E 
19 s balance and weights or electxonic balance; counting bay or other 

suitable counting device; assortment of graduates/spatulas/mortar and E 
pestles. 316-28.107(2)(a-d),F.A.C.) 

44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section E z n 64B16-28.140(3Xc) OR (e),F.A.C.) 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and tiles In hard copy or in E a readily available electronic data format 54316-26.107(1). F,A.C.] 45 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing, 64816-27.210,F A.C.] D 0 
21 Medication properly labeled 64916-27.lol,F.A.C3 46 Compounding records property maintained (64316-28140(4),F.A.C.] * N 0 0 
22 All flx medication within the St department. 16-28.120(1),F.A.Ci N 0 47 Unit dose records propehymaintained 64316-27.410 (1), F.A.C.] 

* N 0 0 
23 Cal PolIcy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings 

N o (protected under 766.101.F.S.] 64316-27.300, F.A.C.] 
24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. 

N o , P.A.C.] * Questions with (') may be answered /a (not applicable). 
25 tiscard on P.s label. 64616-28.402(t)(h),F.A.C.] N 0 
Remailcs: Leslie Johnson RPT 21005; John Reading, Jr RPT 21007. #3 DEA expiresa-31-201 1. #5 NA. #7 Tech ratio letter 6-22-1994, #23 Last CQI meeting #39 CS inventory 

#43 Book - OK. #44 Logbook. St drug purchases from Smith Drug-Valdosta.and AmerisourceBergen-Ortando. 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulslions coreemed herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is te atd correct to the best of my knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Benjamin Fenn, RPh 

10-18-2010 
Date Vnarmacist signature 

a. 
ID ci2O 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
ROUTINE CHANGE WOO NEW CURRENTLY NOT OPERATING CHANGE OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
2743 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/23/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
Ac5 573767 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

JOHN TREADING STREET ADDRESS 
433 HIGHWAY 29 S 

TELEPHONE 4 EXT. 
850-968-2489 

CITY COUNTY 
CANTONMENT 27 

STATE/ZIP 
32533-1401 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE 4 
10065 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTEREO PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE it 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday l.Joseph Gibson PS 26203 

Open 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am closed 2.Benjamin Fenn PS 13028 
Close 6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 3pm 3. Melissa Shores RPT 21008 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
I R.x department hours S days for4o hours perweek. 64B16-28.1081, [ — - 

2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. (64816-27.410, F.A.C,1 : - c Pharmacist on duty when Ra department open, (64Bl6-28.109. F.A.C.] — 

4 Proper signs displayed. (465.025(7), F.S.] 64516-26.109(1), F.A.C.] t64B16-28.IOS1, F.A.C.] (64916-28.1035, F.A.C.] 64916-27.1001, F.A.C.] 

— 

- 

5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient orthe patent's agent. 64616-27.820(1), SAC.] — 
- — 

6 Prescription department has Convenient sink/running water. 64616-28.102(1), F,A.C.] — - 

7 Prescription department clean and safe. 64616-28.102(4), F.A.C,] : 
B Proper equipment and references as required. 64BI6-28.102(5)(a), F.A.C.] 

9 Medication properly labeled. (465.0255. F.S.] 64616-28.108, F.A.C.] — 
- 

ID Expired medications removed from the shelves, 64616-28.110, F.A.C.] — 
- < — 

11 COI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 1766.101, ES.] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.] , 

— 3< — 
12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 465.022(4), F.S.] >< 

- 

— 
13 Prescriptions have the dale dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(lXc) 6. F.S.] 64B16-28.140(3)(b), [ — 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64916-27.800, F.A.C.] : 
- 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. 893.04, F.S.] 
— 

— - — 
16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of 456.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excessofone yearorsix months forcontrols from the datewritten. 893,04(I)(g), ES.) 64016-27,211, F.A.C.] — 

18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. 893,07(1 )(a), F.S.] : 19 DEA 222 order forms properly Completed. F.S.] 
— 

— 20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer system is retrievable. 2ICFR 1306.22] 64616-28.140, F.A.C.] 
. — 

— 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 465.022(12)(b), F.S.] 

. - — 

.x 
22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 2ICFR 1306.22(b)(3)] 64016-28.140(3)(b), [ - 

: c 
23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions v,itft'n 24 hours or close of business on next business day of leaming of instance, 

Reports include all required InformatIon. (465.01 5(3), F.S.] 

24 Record of theft or signiflcaTt loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and Is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), ES,] 465015, P.S.] 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the PDMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), ES.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th ot the following month. 
499.0121(14), ES.] 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64616-27.210, F.A.C.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64016-27.700, 
29 Unit dose records properlymaintained, ] 64a16-28.1 18, F.A.C.] 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. F.12.012(3)(a)2., (d), F.A.C.] 

- Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 
Remarks: Adam Bass RPT 21001; John Reading RPT21007; Kahn Bonano IOO6; LeslieJohnson RPT 21005. DEAexpires8-31-2014. #2 Tech rattoletter6-22-19g4, #11 LastCOI meeting 9-1-2011. #12 Future requirement. #18 CS s.l-2011. #22 Logbook. #23'One incident-Escambia CSO. #24None since 7-1-2011. 

CII prescription file survey (60Rxs): Local Practitioner- 97%; Local Patient- 100%; PaIn Therapy - 78%; Non-pain Therapy- 22%. 
No batch compounding.. No compounding for practitioner office stock. 
R.x drug suppliers: Smith Drug-Valdosta; AmerloansourceBergen-Ortando. 

I have read and have had this inspecttat report and the laws and herein explained, art do affirm that the intorniation given herein is due and correct to l of my knowledge. I have received a copy or 
the Licensee Bill of Rights, 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Joseph Gibson, RPh 

01-23-2012 
Date 

a 
File # 496 

p4 103821 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

WWW.D OH .STATE.FL.US 

Institutional Representative 
INV 359 Revised 12)11, 10/il, 9/Il, 10/IC, 10/09, 5/06,12/02,12/00 

Investigator/sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ID ci2O 



DOH CASE # PS 2012-1 6088. 

JOHN T. READING SR, RPH 

CD containing 13. pictures of medications 

i CONFIDENTIAL 

Exhibit___ . 



















) 

T
h 

h 



rotaili 









 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HI 
Rick Scott 

Missionr Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrony, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307014 

ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES 
2496 MONTEREY COURT 
WESTON, FL 33327 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

irnrn 
Executive irector 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartnlentotHealth 

PRONE: (850)245-4444. FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOIJTUBE: tldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of alt people in Flonda through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. - - 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307014 

ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

AND: KEVIN JAKAB 
1936 SAN MARCO BOULEVARD 
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Director 
//BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance• Bureau of HCPR TWflTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-170 1 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 

PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 8501413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEAL} 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida thrnugh integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

January 14, 2014 

DALIAH P. WEST 
2401 FLAMINGO DRIVE 
MIRAMAR, FL 33023 

Re: DOH v. Enrique Moises Pallares 
Case # 201307014 

Dear Daliah P. West: 

I am writing to you concerning the Department of Health's review of certain health care provided by the 
above named health care practitioner. That review included a full investigation and the filing of an 
Administrative Complaint. That review is nearing a conclusion and Board of Pharmacy is scheduled to 
take final disciplinary action in the matter on Wednesday, February 12, 2014. 

This is one of several matters that will be part of the public meeting. You are welcome to attend this 
public meeting, but you are not required to attend, and this is not a request that you attend the meeting. 
Cases shown on the agenda may be heard in a different order or may be heard earlier if all parties are 
present. Cases are scheduled to begin at 9 am.; therefore, if you choose to attend it is imperative that 
you arrive promptly at 9 a.m and be prepared to remain until the case is heard as cases may be heard 
in a different order than they appear on the agenda. 

Florida law provides that the person who made the complaint to the Department ("complainant") is 

entitled to provide oral or written communication to the Board concerning the alleged violation or the 
appropriate penalty. Likewise, the patient/legal representative in the case who was not the 
"complainant" may request that the Board allow them the same opportunity to provide such written or 
oral communication. The Board has granted such requests. If you have any questions concerning this 
matter, please contact the Department's Prosecution Services Unit prior to the meeting at 
(850)245-4640. Please reference the above case number when calling. 

All final disciplinary actions of the Board are reflected in written orders which are available on the 
Department's website at: . Please allow 30-60 days after the board meeting for 
the posting of these orders. 

Sincerely, 

//Executive Director f Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of lth www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Christopher A. Jurich, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOFI v. Enrique Moises Pallares, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2013-07014 

DATE: November 5, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Enrique Moises Pallares, R.Ph. 

Subject's Address of 2496 Monterey Court 
Record: Weston, FL 33327 

Enforcement Address: 2496 Monterey Court 
Weston, FL 33327 

Subject's License No: 24103 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 13195 

Initial Licensure Date: 8/10/1988 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation: Section 465.016(1)(g), F.S. (2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: October 24, 2013 

Leo Fallon & Debra Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Kevin Jakab 
1936 San Marco Boulevard 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



Complainant: D.P.W. 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Settlement Agreement 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Board Notification Letter 

Election of Rights 

Cost Summary 

Defense Attorney Document dated 10-31-13 

PCP Memorandum 

456 Materials 

456 Request 

Signed Confidentiality Form 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 9 

Florida Department of Health 
www.FloridasHealth.com 

Office of the General Counsel Prosecution Services linft 
TWITTER:l-lealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 
FACEBOOK:FLDepartmefltOfHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 
YOUTUBE fldoh 

PRONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE OFFLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF 

PETITIONER, 

cASE NO.. 2013-07014 

ENRIQLJE MOISES PALLARES, R.P1L, 

RESPONDENT. 

______________I 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to thefl Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. . . . . 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter., Enrique Moises 

R.Ph., was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number PS 24103. Respondent's mailing address of record is 2496 

Monterey Court, Weston, Florida 33327. 



* 

2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and prop&ly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that she is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. RespOndent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven trpe, constitute violations of law and cause the 

te sutiect tp, discipflue by te. Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

?k ra ne be when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the 1304rd arid under oath shall 

all tJ79 this case and its 

2 e- of Pharmacy shall an administrative 

fine of TWO FIFTY DOLLARS ($25q;O0) The fine shall be 

paid by Respondent ... the Department df. Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

2 



- .... - L'UU tt. 0/ 

Florida 32314-6320, withib 30 days from the date the Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

filed with the Department Clerk. 

3. Costs- The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in not THOUSAND FIVE 

HUN DR Wt 
. tND CENTS 

csz566.24). Total d:Øst--, .be assessed the Settlement 

Agreement is presented to the The çQsts shalt be paid by 

Respondent tp. tiTIC artment o f lie aith , a nce. Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Pest Ottice Box 632P, 32314- 

S320, within ¶PC. the Ct is filed with the 

Department Clerk. 

4. CE Respondent shall successfully compiete a 

Continuing Education: urse on the subject ;qf PREVENTION OF 

MEDICAL ERRORS of EIGHT (8) !fts of credit, which has 

been approved by the Fiprida Board of Pharmacy, yvithin one (1) year of 

the filing of a Final accepting and incoryqrating this Settlement 

Agreement. These continuing education hours L be in addition to the 

3 



/ 

hours required for license renewal. Within ten (10) days of corhpletion of 

the course and/or receipt of the certificate of completion, Respondent shall 

• mail a copy of the continuing education certificate of completion to the 

Pharmacy Compliance Officer at the address Usted in paragraph tWO, (2) 

above. ' 

• 6. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapters 456, 

465; 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federa' law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to 
. 

•. 

?! of - It is expressly uncierstoed that a violation 

of the provisions Of. this Settlement A9reement approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the for Which disciplinary action may be 

initiated to Fleri Statutes. 

No ,Eprce or Et.e until Fina a is expressly 

understood that thks Set.jiement Agreement is to approval by the 

Board and has no force pr effect until the Board iqc&porates the terms of 

this SeWement Agreernert into its Hnal Order. . - 

4 

... ..- 



00i3 at iu 

9'. Purpose of This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further admin&rative 

action with respect to this particular case. in this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine alt investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent-prior to, or in conjunction with, cqnsideration of 

the Settlement Agreemeqt. Petitioner and Respondent to support 

this at the time it presented to the Board and 

shall offer no te$timQnyI pra nt that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law Furthermore, should 

this Settiement I.,gireement nqt be acceped the it is agreed that 

the presentation and of this ement Agree .rnent and, other 

documents and matters Ljy the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of from further consideration, 

or resolution of these prqçsdings. 

10. Not - Respondent and the 

E,epartment fully that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into ? Final Order will preclude additional 

proceedings by the or Department against V&espondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth inthe Complaint. 

S 



_flft OaJ if 

, of Attornejfs Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

12. Waiver of Procedura' Rig - Respondent waWes aLl rights 

'to further administrative and to appeal and review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

13. Currant Addresses Respondent shall keep current her 

mailihq address and her practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of maiLing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that 

approving and inàorporating this Settlement 

matter. 

the Board enter a Final Order 

Agreement in resolution of this 

SIGNED day of 6 (40 -€A , 2013. 

- 6 



,oc/— 000 if / IL) 

• STATE OF_ 

• COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared 
is known! to me or by 
identificatidn), and 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before of , , 
APPROVED this 

My Commission Expires: 

Nove.Mt,er 

LrSA L REAGOR 
CcmrTtSIQO I FE 040514 

- E*pkes Novemb& 5, 2014 

., 2013. 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Christopher A. Jurich 
Florida Bar No. 0099014 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health ution Services Uffit 
4052 C Way,. Sin (>65 
Tallahassee, L: (850) Z45'444.. S174 
Fax: (8S0) 

st R 
who, under oath, acknowledges that 

whose identity 
(type. of 

his signature 

day of 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Christopher A. 
Assistant General Counsel 

7 



• . 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-07014 

ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, 

RESPONDENT. 
•1 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health (Department), by and 

through its. undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint 

before the Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Enrique Moises 

Pa(lares, R.Ph., and in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, lorida Statutes; and Chapter 465, lbrida Statutes. 

2. At l times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respoi,dent was a licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, having 

been issued license PS 24103. 



S. 
3. Respondent's address of record is 2496 Monterey Court, 

Weston, FlQrida 33327. 

4. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was employed as the prescription department manager of 

Costco Pharmacy, d/b/a Costco Pharmacy Store #182, located in North 

Miami Beach, Florida. 

5. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, T.W. was 

• a then seven (7) year-old customer and patient of Costco Pharmacy. 

6. On or about February 21, 2013, D.W., T.W.'s mother, presented 

to Costco Pharmacy with a prescription for T.W. for "Diastat 12.5 

7. Diastat, also known as Diastat AcuDlal or Diastat Pediatric, is a 

brand name of diazepam that is administered rectally to treat seizures. 

According to Section 893.03(4), Florida Statutes, diazepam is a Schedule IV 

controlled substance that has a low potential for abuse relative to the 

substances in Schedule II and has a currently accepted medical use in 

treatment in the United States. Abuse of diazepam may lead to limited 

physical or psychological dependence relative to the substances in 

Schedule III. 

Department of Health v. Enrigue Noises Pallares, R.PtI. 2 
Case No. 2013-02014 



. 
8. On or about February 25, 2013, Respondent filled T.W.'s 

prescription and dispensed a syringe with a 20 milligmm (mg) dose of 

diazepam to T.W. 

9. The syringe dispensed by Respondent in paragraph eight (8) is 

a diazepam rectal gel delivery system. The syringe has four dose options, 

12.5mg, 15mg, 17.5mg, and 20mg, and the dose is selected by "dialing" 

the syringe until the prescribed dose is displayed in the window on the 

syringe. After the prescribed dose is selected, the dose must be "locked" 

by the pharmacist before the syringe is dispensed to the patient. 

10. The syringe dispensed to T.W. by Respondent in paragraph 

eight (8) was not dialed to the prescribed 12.5mg dose and locked by 

Respondent before it was dispensed. 

11. Section 465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

using in the compounding of a prescription, or furnishing upon prescription, 

an ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or 

article prescribed, except as authorized in Section 465.019(6), Florida 

Statues, or Section 465.025, Florida Statutes, constitutes grounds for 

disciplinary action. 

Department of Health v, lque Moises Pallares, R.PIi. 3 
Case No. 2013-07014 



. . 
12. As set forth above, Respondent furnished a syringe with a 

20mg dose of diazepam to patient T.W. when T.W. presented a prescription 

for Diastat 12.5mg. 

13. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012), by using in the compounding of a 

prescription, or furnishing upon prescription, an ingredient or article 

different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

Department of Health v. Enrique Moises Pallares, k.Pti. 
4 Case No. 2013-07014 



. . 
SIGNED this 9cf fk day of i-cj6tr- . 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

CHRISTOPHER A. JUR{CH 
Assistant General Counsel , Bar No. 0099014 

FILED Florida Department of Health 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Office of the General Counsel 

DEPUTY CLERK 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
CLERK Angelsalulers 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 DATE 
Telephone: (850) 245-1111 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: christopherjurich@doh.state.fl.us 

/CAJ 

PCP: Oc6be.r 
PCP Members: Leo Sillon, /ass 

Departhient of Health v. Entique Pabares, R.Ph. 
Case No. 2013-07014 



. . 
NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to iOn 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Deparbnerit of Health v. EnriQue Molses Pallares, R.Pft. 6 
Case No 2013-07014 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people n Flodda through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

State Surgeon General & Secretaty 

November 14, 2013 

VIAUSMAIL 

Kevin Jakab, Esquire 
1936 San Marco Boulevard 
Jacksonville, Florida 32207 

Re: DOHv. Enrique Moises PaHares, R.Ph. - 
DOH Case Number: 2013-07014 

Dear Mr. . 
I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by your client on October 31, 2013 
concerning the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of 
the Florida Board of Pharmacy, scheduled for February 5, 2014 at the Doubletree by Hilton, 60 
South Ivanhoe Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32804. Please be advised your case will be set at 
the convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be 
notified of the date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher A. Jurich 
Assistant General Counsel 

CAJ/crl 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel' Proseojtion Services Unit 

TWIUER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65• Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofrlealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Sufte 105 

YCUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444-FAX 8501245-466X 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201307014 

Page 1 of I 

Subject's Name: PALLA.RES. ENRIQUE MOISES 

L ***** Cost to Date 

I_____________________ Hours Costs : 0.70] $38.43 

1 1 
I 

I I 

I I I 

I 

I 

$1,619.42 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 11/5/2013 



10—31—13;05:1OPM;JAKAB LAW. - ;904 683 1588 # 2/ 10 

J4KAB: 

October , 2013 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED AN)) EACSThI]LE 

Christopher A. Jurich, Assi General Counsel 
Florida of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL -3265 
RE: Florida Deparirnent of Health v. Enrique Moises .Pallares, K Ph. 

Case .: 2013-17014 - 

Dear Mr. Jwich: 

We are in receipt of your October 25, 2013 correspondence that contained the Administrative Complaint 
(Case No.: 2013-0704.4), i&.t poxisideration of the allegations 
contained ia s81d Complaint rn light of tbc offer to resolve this matter, our 
client, Enriquc Pallares R Ph hqeby your settlenierit offer rtl4ted to matter Please find 
enclosed the foliowthg . 

1 Mr. Pall flgpç4 and Election and 
2 A copy of the Settlement Agreement 

Pleare copy our office on any fqytbei related to this ase and forward the meeting date, 
time, and looatiou of the Board !neetmg regarding the settlement agreemenL We also request that the 
Board approve this settlement agreement without the need for Mr Pal4ares to be present (personally), if 
possible. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, If you have any lstions or comments, please feel 
free to contact our office at any tie- 

K.EVINE. JAKAB; ESQ. 

KEJWx 
Enclosures 

cc: Enrique Moises Pallares, tPh. (w/encls.) 

Law, PLLC 1936 San Marco Boulevard Jacksonville, FL 32207 
www.JakabLaw.com 9046832290 fax: 904.6833588 





V s 

JUL 2 5 2013 

July22, 2013 /MIAMI 
VIA EMAIL & U.S. MAIL TNVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

Jeneice Mayers, Investigation Specialist II 
IiwesLigative Services Unit 
Medical Quality Assurance 
Florida Department of Health 
8350 N.W. Terrace, Suite 400 
Doral, FL 33 166-7709 

RE: Investigation of Enrique Moises Pallares 
DOH Case No.: PS 2013-07014 

Dear Ms. Mayers: 

It was a pleasure speaking to you regarding the above-captioned case on Friday, July 19, 2013. 
We understand that your investigation of Mr. Pallares is expected to be completed this week. 
Thank you for updating us regarding the status of the investigation. 

Attached to this correspondence you.will find the Affidavit of Enrique Moises Pallares. Please 
review this Affidavit prior to sending the file to the Probable Cause Panel. We also request a 
copy of DOH's investigation file. 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any questions or comments, 
please feel free to contact our office at any Lime. 

Sincerely, 

KEVIN E. JAKAB, ESQ. 

KEJ:llr 
Enclosure 

cc: Enrique Moises Pallares 

Jakab Law, PLLC 1936 San Marco Boulevard Jacksonville, FL 32207 

www.JakabLaw.cdm phone: 904.683.2290 fax: 904.683.7588 



DOH VS. Eriilqiies Moises Pallares, R.Ph. 
Case Number 2013-07014 
Page 3 

Acknowledgement of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

t7NC. I Cl am the Subject of an investigation. by the 
Department of Health. As the Subject of such an investigation, lam entitled to inspect or 
receive a copy of the investigative, report, including any expert Witness report or pitient 
records connected with the fgation pursuant 'to Section 456,073(tO),: Florida 
Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received 
under this provision, until 10 days probable cause is found and to maintaih the 
confidentiality of patient records pursuant tu Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

I understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want ( ) do not vant 
()to receive a copy of any K-rays that are contained within the Investigative file. 

h. 

Enrique Moises PaHares, ,Ph. 
.07014 

SIGNED this of_________________ 201à on behalf of EnHque 

Moises Pallares, R.Ph. 

Kevin Jakab, Esquire 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Miami Xl Date of Case: 05/02/2013 Case Number: PS 201 3-07014 

Subject: 
ENRIQUE 
2496 Monterey Court 
Weston, FL 33327 
(954) 384-4975 (H) 

Source: 
DW 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2201 24103 Pharmacist Pharmacy 08/02/13 

Period of Investigation: 05/20/13 — 06/02/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation of 55. 456.072(1 )(k) (dd) The following acts shall constitute grounds for which the disciplinary actions specified in subsection (2) 
may be taken: Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon...; Violating any provision of this...; 465.016(1)(e)(g)(i)(r) The 
following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary action, as specified ins. 456.072(2): Violating chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. 5$. 301- 
392, known as the Federal Food, Drug...; using in the compounding of a prescription...; Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug...; 
Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto. F.A.C.; Rule 64816-27.101 No pharmacist or pharmacy 
employee or proprietor shall knowingly purchase, sell, possess or distribute drugs...; FAC.; Rule 64B16-27.101(1)(c) A pharmacist or pharmacy 
intern must: Interpret and prescription contents. 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint (Case Summary and Initiating 
Documents Exhibit #1), submitted by DW (mother of minor patient/child DW alleges that ENRIQUE 
MOISES PALLARES dispensed an undialed suppository of Valium 20mg for her daughter (TVW 7 

y/o/female) on 02/23/13 at COSTCO PHARMACY (PH 18472); a Community Pharmacy, d/b/a COSTCO 
PHARMACY Store #182, located at 14585 Biscayne Blvd, North Miami Beach, FL 33181. The prescription 
was written for Diastat 12.5mg. DW also alleges that PALLARES dispensed raw materials to her daughter 
patient TVW. 
PALLARES was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 05/10/13 (Exhibit #2) and was provided a copy 
of the Case Summary and Attachments from (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that ENRIQUE MOISES PALLAES is currently licensed as 
a Pharmacist. 

No patient(s) notification is required for this case, because DW (parent of minor patient/child TVW) is the 
source. Upon interview via telephonically on 06/13/13, DW requested periodic updates on the case. 

ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES is represented by Attorney KEVIN E JAKAB, located at 1936 San 
Marco Boulevard, Jacksonville, FL 32207; (904) 683-2290 (Exhibit #8). JAKAB has requested a copy 
of the entire investigative file immediately upon completion of the investigation, pursuant to Florida 
Statute F.S. 456.073 . 
On 07/03/13, Attorney KEVIN E JAKAB submitted a written response (via US Mail) on behalf of Prescription 
Department Manager (PDM), ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES neither admitted nor denying the allegatiOns 
Exhibit #8). 

Related Case(s): NONE 

I nvesti9ator/Date: 20' 

(J i...'/ V 
Mayers, 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 
-' 

Z 
I W 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPO!T7 CASE N1'"BER: PS 2013-07014 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of ExhibitslRecords/Documents 3 

Interview of DW, Patient TWV's Mother — (Source) 4 
Interview of TATYANA DUBROVSKY, MD — Mitness) 4 
Statement of ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, PDM (PS 24103) through Attorney 
KEVIN E JAKAB — (Subject/Exhibit #8) 5 

IV. EXHIBITS 

* 1. Case Summary and Attachments 6-15 
2. Copy of Subject Notification letter, dated 05/10/13 16 

3. Copy of Status 30 Letter dated, 05/10/13 17 

4. Copy of Florida Department of State Divisions of Corporations 18-21 
* 5. Documentation obtained from ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, COSTO 

PHARMACY (PH 18472) PDM on 06/21/13 -40 
* 6. Copies of COSTCO PHARMACY (PH 18472) Inspection Reports 41-45 
* 7. Documentation obtained from DW, Patient T'VW's Mother 46-54 
* 8. Letter of Representation and written response from Attorney KEVIN E JAKAB, 

received 07/03/13 & 07/25/13 55-60 
* 9. Confidential Index 61 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REporT: CASE PS 2013-07014 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS!RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit 3: Copy of Status 30 Letter dated 05/10/13, that was sent to DW, mother of minor patient/child T'vW. 

Exhibit 4: Contains the Florida Department of State Division of Corporations, listing CT CORPORATION 
SYSTEM as the registered agent of COSTCO PHARMACY (PH 18472), d/b/a COSTCO 
PHARMACY Store #182 
Status: Active 

Exhibit 5: Documentation that were obtained from ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, Costco pharmacy 
(PH 18472), d/b/a COSTCO PHARMACY Store #182 PDM on 06/21/13 by this investigator, which 
contains the following: 

• Printouts of TVW prescription (pp. 22-23) 
• TVW prescription Status Trail/Notes (pg. 24) 
a T"M Prescription Profile from 06/18/07 — 02/23/13 (pp. 25-26) 

Costco Pharmacy Register for the numbers of prescriptions filled on the day of the alleged 
misfill 02/23/13 (pp. 27-30) 

• Costco Sales Summary for 02/23/13 (pp. 31-33) 
• Costco Usage Report for 02/23/13 (pp. 34-36) 
• Employee Performance Log (pp. 37-39) 
• CQI for the month of June (pg. 40) 

Exhibit 6: Contains copies of COSTCO PHARMACY (PH 18472), d/bla COSTCO PHARMACY Store #182 
Inspection Reports for the following dates: 

• 09/22/08 — (Satisfactory) Routine Inspection 
• 09/03/09 — (Satisfactory) Routine Inspection 
• 03/17/11 — (Satisfactory) Routine Inspection 
• 06/21/13 — (Satisfactory) Routine re-Inspection 

Exhibit 7: Documentation that were obtained from DW, mother of minor patient/child TVW, which contains the 
following: 

• Photograph & label of the medication that is in question Diazepam (pp. 46-51) 
• Receipt & patient counseling information for 02/23/13 (pp. 52-53) 
• Prescription receipt from Publix pharmacy that was filled on 04/10/13 (pg. 54) 

Exhibit 8: Letter of Representation dated 06/28/13 and written response dated 07/22/13 from Attorney KEVIN 
E JAKAB, on behalf his client Prescription Department Manager (PDM), ENRIQUE MOISES 
PALLARES, letter of representation also requested a 20 day extension which was received on 

07/03/13 (via US Mail) and written response received on 07/25/13 at the Miami Investigative Service 
Unit Office. 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE PS 2013-07014 

INTERVIEW OF DW, PATIENT NW'S MOTHER — ) 
On 08/01/13, this Investigator interviewed DW, mother of minor patient/child T\iW in the Miami Investigative 
Service Unit Office. DW reiterated her complaint that are noted within the Healthcare Practitioner Complaint 
Form that she submitted to DOH/Consumer Servicer Unit (Exhibit #1) and stated to this Investigator that DR 
TATYANA DUBROVSKY wrote a prescription for Diastat 125mg for her daughter and her daughter was given 
Valium 20mg which was a misfilled prescription (see photos Exhibit #7 PP. 46-51). This investigator also asked 
DW was counseling provided or offered at the time of dispensing and she stated "no". DW also stated to this 
investigator that she nor her family will no longer fill prescriptions at COSTCO PHARMACY (PH 18472), d/b/a 
COSICO PHARMACY Store #182. OW further stated to this Investigator that her daughter TVW didn't ingest 
any of the misfiled prescription. 

INVESTIGATOR : 
OW (mother of minor patient/child TVW) has the medication in her possession and stated to this investigator 
that she is willing to produce the medication if the case goes for a hearing. 

INTERVIEW OF TATYANA DUBROVSKYI MD — ) 
Employment Address: 
JOE IO CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL PEDIATRIC NEUROLOGY DEPARTMENT 
1150 N. th Avenue 
Suite 520 
Hollywood, FL 33021 
(954) 265-2423 

On 05/1 0/1 3, this Investigator and Investigator Specialist II GABRIEL CRUZ presented to JOE DIMAGGIO 
CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL PEDIATRIC NEUROLOGY DEPARTMENT, located at 1150 N. th Avenue, Suite 
520, Hollywood, FL 33021 and conducted an interview with TATYANA DUBROVSKY, MD. In summary, 

DUBROVSKY stated to this Investigator that patient/child TVW has been her patient since 02/2013 and has 
been treated for seizure problems. DUBROVSKY also pulled patient/child TVW's chart and verified the 
medication that was prescribe on 02/21/13 was Diastat 12.5mg. 

Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE PS 201 3-07014 

STATEMENT OF ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES, PDM (PS 24103)— SUBJECT/EXHIBIT #8} 
Employment Address: 
JAKAB LAW 
1936 San Marco Boulevard 
Jacksonville, FL 32207 
(904) 683-2290 (W) 

On 07/03/13, this Investigator received a Letter of Representation dated 06/25/13 and written response on 

07/25/13 dated 07/22/13 from Attorney KEVIN E JAKAB, on behalf his client Prescription Department Manager 
(PDM), ENRIQUE MOISES PALLARES (Exhibit #8). In summary, JAKAB stated the following: "You will find 

Affidavit of ENRIQUE MOISED PALLARES please review this Affidavit prior to sending the file to the Probable 

Cause Panel" (Exhibit #8 pp. 59-60). JAKAB also requested a copy of DON's investigation file. 

INVESTIGATOR : 
On 06/21/1 3, this Investigator and Medical Quality Assurance Investigator DAVID WARSHOFSKY presented 
to the address of Costco pharmacy (PH 18472), d/b/a COSTCO PHARMACY Store #182. WARSHOFSKY 
conducted a Routine re-inspection (Exhibit #6 pg. 45) and patient/child TVW's prescriptions profiles (Exhibit #5 

pp. 25-26) were retrieved during the routine satisfactory re-inspection. 

The Confidential Index is Exhibit 9. 

Page 5 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Detail by Entity Name Page 1 of 4 

CWC CORPORATION 

ling Information 

Document bar 
FEI/EIN Number 
Date Filed 
State 
Status 
Last Event 
Event Date Filed 
Event Effective Date 

Principal Address 

999 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAI-1, WA 98027 

Changed: 0110812004 

Mailing Address 

P.O. BOX 35005 
VFTN: LICENSING DEPT. 
SEATTLE, WA 98124 

P14754 
911223280 
06/0811987 

WA 
ACTIVE 

CORPORATE MERGER 
04/25/1995 

NONE 

Changed: 01104/2011 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

CORPORATION SYSTEM 
12008. PINE ISLAND ROAD 
PLANTATION, FL 33324 

Name Changed: 105/1992 

ddress Changed: 03/05/1992 

Officer/Director Detail 

lame & Address 

rifle VPAS nAL 
http ://search.sunbiz.org . 3 

For&gn Profit Corporation 

DOSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION 

Cross Reference Name 



Detail by Entity Name Page 2 of 4 

)LIN, RICHARD J 
399 LAKE DR 
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 

ritle PD, CEO 

JELINEK, WALTER C 
399 LAKE DR 
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 

title SVPS 

BENOLIEL, JOEL 
999 LAKE DR 
ISSAQUAH, WA 95027 

ritle EVC 

GALANTI, RICHARD ACFO 
999 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAH, WA 95027 

Fitle SVP 

PETTERSON, DAVID S 
a99 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAAQUAF-1, WA 95027 

ritle Assistant Secretary 

rsuboi, Gail E 
)99 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAH, WA 95027 

rifle VP/Treasurer 

Kaplan, Harold E 
999 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 

ritle VP/Assistant Secretary 

Callans, Patrick J 
999 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 

Title VP/Assistant Secretary 

Minola, John M 
)99 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 

litle VPlAssistant Secretary 

Sullivan, John C 
999 LAKE DRIVE 
ISSAQUAH, WA 98027 



Detail by Entity Name Page 3 of 4 

title Assistant Secretary 

McCuIla, Margaret C 
45940 Horseshoe Drive, Suite 150 
Sterling, VA 20166 

Report Fi'ed Date 
2011 1 
2012 01/06/2012 

2013 01/24/2013 

Document 

01/24/2013 — ANNUAL REPORT fl View image in PDF format 

01/06/2012--ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01/0412011 —ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

02/19/2010--ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01/08/2010 — ANNUAL REPORT fl View image in PDF format 

01/13/2009 --ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01/14/2008 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01/16/2007 —ANNUAL REPORT View image in PoFforinat 

01/09/2006 --ANNUAL REPORT View image in POF format 

01/06/2005 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01/08/2004 —ANNUAL ! View image in POF format 

01/13/2003 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in POP format 

01/31/2002 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01/22/2001 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

01(31/2000-- REINSTATEMENT View image in PDF format 

03/17/1999 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 
! 

02/09/1 998— ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

05/12/1 997— ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 

06/20/1996 — ANNUAL REPORT View image in PDF format 
} 

04/11/1995 — ANNUAL REPORT! View image in PDF format 

Copyright and Privacy Policies 

State or , Department of State 



Detail by Entity Name Page 4 of 4 

13 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

RotirlNE fl NEW NOT OPER&IING OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

Note; If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, license must so Indicate and a separate inspection forni should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
COSTCOW-IOLESALE CORPORATION 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18472 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/28/2008 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
COSTCO PHARMACY #182 

DEA NUMBER 
bc7689637 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

ENRIQUE M PALLARES STREET ADDRESS 
14585 BISCAYNE BOULEVARD 

TELEPHONE 4 I EXT. 
(407) 681-2125 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
NORTH MIAMI BEACH 123 

IP 
33181 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE 4 
24103 

PRESCRIPTION OEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED LICENSE 4 

Open 
I 

Monday 
I 

Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

Close 

I. 
2. 

3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

I Current pharmacy permit displayed. 465.015(1)(a),F.Sj 26 All medicinal drug 's require datedlspensed. C 
2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current Ax department 

manager, 485.018,F.S.] 
2T Prescription records Identify the responsible dispensing pharrnaciala. 

64B16-26.140(3Xb)7,F.A.C.] Z C 
3 Current DEAregislj-auon. ZICPR 1301.111 465.023(1)(c).F.S.] 28 Complete pharmacy prescription records. 64616-28.140,F.A.C.l C 
4 Ax department hours open for business are posted and are a minimum 

of4ohours perweek. 64816-28.404, F AC.] C 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. ) 
5 Intems property registered and supervised. (465.013,F.S.] 

64B16-26.400(4),F.A.C.] fl 30 Confrdled substance records readily rethevable. .r.S.] Z C 
6 Phaniiacy technicians properly Identified and supervised, 

64816-27.41o,F.A.C.] 
31 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance Ax. 

893.04(1)(c)6,F.S.j Z C 
7 Proper pharmacist technician ratio, If 2;1 or 3;1 Pharmacy Manager has 

Board of Pharmacyapproval. 04818-27.4101 j64016-2T.420, F.A.C.J 

32 Prescribe/s name/address/DEA # on all controlled substance Ax. 

893.04(1)(c)2.F.S.I 

8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. 
64B16-27.100(1)F.A.C.} 

33 Patienes name/address on controlled substance Rx, 
03.04(1)(c)1.F.S.j Z C 

9 Pharmacist on duty when Ax department open. 64B16-28.109.F.AC. 
34 Date controlled substance Ax was filled on Ax. 

893.04(1)(c)6.F.S.I Z C 
10 Generic drug aign displayed. 465.025(7),F.S.] C 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have; drug prescribed, 

quantity and directions for use. (893.04Q1)(c)4.F.S.I Z C 
11 Sign displayed Rx Dept Closed" if establishment is open and Ax 

Department closed. 64B16-28.109(1).F.A.C.] 
38 Date of refills written on controlled substance Ax or on computer records. 

f893.04(1)(c)0.F.S.] Z C 
12 Sign with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour), and 

staling that a pharmacist Is available on premises for consultation upon C z 
request. 0491 8-27.400(6),F.A.C.r 

macist's initials on controlled substance Re refills. 
893.04(1)( c)6,F.S.] Z C 

13 Sign designating the private patient consultation area z 64B16-28.1035,FAC.I 
38 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 within 6 months from date 

prescription was signed. (893.04(lgg),F.S.] C 
14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 

64B16-2T.820.F.A.C.] 
39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 

for Inspection. {893.07(lXa).F.S.] C 
15 Adequate patient counseling by pharmadst when offer is accepted. 

64816-27.82o,F.A.C.] Z C 40 DEA 222 orderformns property completed. (893.07(2),F.S.J C 
16 Rx depi has sink/running water convenient to Re dept. C (64016-20.t02,F.A.C.J 

41 Controlled substance Ax Information in computer system is retrievable. 
CFR 1300.221 1893.07.F.S] 164B18.28.14o,F.A.C.] C C 

17 Prescription department has drug refrigeration storage. 
j04B16-28.104.F.A.C.] 

42 Controlled substance records lnlained for 2 years. 
CPA 1304.04 & 1306.22] 1893.07(4)(b).F.S.] Z C 

18 Presotption department clean and sale, 84810-28.105,F.A.C.j 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. 893.06(3)(a),F.S.] C 
19 Ax balance and weights or electronic balance; counting tray or other 

suitable counting device; assortment of graduates/spatulas/mortar and 
pestles. 64816-26.107(2)(a-d),F.A.Cj 

44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. 
64B16-28.140(3)(c) OR (e),F.A.C.p 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in 

a readily available electionicdataformat (64B16-28.107(1). F.A.C.] 
45 Registered pharmacist property prescnblng. (64816t27.210.F.A.C.l * C 

21 Medication properly labeled 64916-27.101,F.A.C.] 46 Compounding records properly maintained (64B16-28.140(4),F.A.C.J Z Li C 
22 /I Ax medication within the Rxdepertment 84B16-28.120(1)F.A.C.] Z C Und dose records property maintained 64816-27,410(1), I * L] C 
23 CQI Policy mid Procedures and proof of quarterly meetngs 

(protected 766.1D1.F.S.] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.] Z E] 
24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. 

6401628.110. F.A.C.j C •Ques'Jons with (*) maybe answered n/a (not applicable). 

, 
25 "Discard atterdals on Ax label. 164B16-28.402(1)(h).F.A.C.] Z C 
Remarks; 

I have read and have had Ittis inspection report and the laws and 
reculauors 

Is true aad of my knowledge. (41 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT enriqUe pallares 
- 

- 

10 mI168 

FiIe# 10603 

lnsp# 76717 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY e.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

IDA DEPARTMfl*1T OF 

HEALT - 

Institutional Representative 

NV 359 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

09-26-2008 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

ROJTINE OWIGE oc NEW NOT Otwica OVThER fl 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 693.09 AND CRAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteraLenterat compounding, icense must so indicate and a separate inspection form should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
COSTCO CORPORATION 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18472 

DATE OF INSPECTION 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
COSTCO PHARMACY #182 

DEA NUMBER 0637 PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

ENRIQUE M PALLARES STREET ADDRESS 
14585 BISCAYNE BOULEVARD 

TELEPHONE# I EXT. 
(407) 661-2125 

CITY I COUNTY 
NORTH MIAMI BEACH 23 

/ZIP 
33181 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
24103 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 

I Monday I Tuesday Thursday I Friday I Saturday I Sunday 

Open I lOAM 10AM I 10AM I lOAM I lOAM I 930PM I CLOSED 

Close 7PM 7PM 7PM 7PM 7PM 6PM CLOSED 

1. ENRIQUE I PALI.ARES/PS24103 

2. SHARI VASSEIJTECHNICIAN 
3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

1 Current pharmacy permit displayed. (465.015(lXa),F.S.I 26 NI medicinal drug Ax's require date dispensed. 
018-20.140(3)(b)2,F,A,C,l N Li 

2 Board of Pharmacy notfied in writing of current Rx department Li manager. (465.0t8,F.S.] 
27 Prescription records identily the responsible dispensing phanmacists. N Li 

3 Current DEA registraton. (2ICFR 1301.111 (465.023(lXc),F.S.] N Li 28 Complete pharmacy prescription records. 164818-28.140,F.A.C.] Li 
4 Ax department hours open for business are posted end are a minimum 

of 40 hours per week. (64B16-28.404, F.A.C.] N Li 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (64816-27.600,F.A.C.j Li 
Intems properly registered and supervised. 465.013,F.S.] 
(64916-26.400(4),F.A.C.] N Li 30 Controlled substance records readily retrIevable. (893.07,F.S.] N Li 

o Pharmacy technicians property Identified and supervised. Li (64616-2T.410.F.A.C.] 
31 Inittals of pharmacist filling controlled substance Ax. 

(693.04(l)(c)8.F.S.] N Li 
7 Proper pharmacist technician ratio. If 2; 1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has N Li Board of Pharmacy approval. (64016-27.410] (64016-27.420. F.A.C.] 

32 nameIaddreas/DEA # on all confrolled substance Ax. 
(693.04(1)(c)2.F.S.] N Li 

8 Pharmacist lIcense/renewal certificate displayed. N Li 184B16'27.100(l)F.A.C.) 
33 Patients name/address on controlled substance Ax. 

(693.04(l)(c)i.F.S.j N Li 
9 Pharmacist on duly when Ax department open. (64B16-26.109,F.A.C. N Li 34 Date controlled substance Ax was lled on Ax. 

(093.04(1)(c)6,F.Sj N Li 
10 Generic drug sign displayed. (465.025(7)F.S.] N Li 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed. 

quantity and directions for use. (893.04(lXc)4.F.S.l N Li 
11 Sign displayed Dept Closed" if establishment is open and Ax N Li Department closed. (64818-28.109(1),F.A.C.J 

36 Date of refills written on controlled substance Ax or on computer records. 
1893.04(lXc)6.F.S.I . N Li 

12 SIgn with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour), and 
stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon N Li Li 
request._(6481 1 37 Pharmacists initials on controlled substance Ax refills. 

(893.04(fl( c)6.F.S.] . N Li 
13 Sign desIgnating the private patent consultaton area z Li (64B16-28.1035.F.A.C.] 

38 Controlled subsiance refills limited to 5 within 6 months from date 
prescription was signed. (893.04(l)(g).F.S.] N Li 

14 Adequate wrItten and vejbal offer to counsel patents. N Li (64018-27.820.F.A.C.] 
30 Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 

for Inspection. (893.07('t)(s),F.S.] N Li 
15 Adequate pabent counseling by pharmacistwhen otferis accepted. N Li (64B16-27.820.F.A.C.] 40 DEA 222 orderforms property completed. (893.07(2),F.S.] N Li 
18 Ax dept. has sinkfrunning water convenient to Ax dept. N Li (64616-26.102,P,A.C.j 

41 Controlled substance Ax information in computer system is retrievable. Li N Li (CPA 1306.221 (803.07,F.SI (64B16-28.140.FAC.] 
17 Prescription department has drug refrigeration storage, N Li (64B16-28.104.F.A.C.] 

42 Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. 
(CPA 1304.04 & 1306.22] (693.07(4Xb),F.S.] N Li 

18 Prescription departmentclean and safe. (64e16-28.105.F.A.C.] N Li Schedulevdnjg records/sales properly kept. (893.OO(3)(a).F.S.J N Li 
19 Ax balance and weights or electronic balance; counting fray or other 

suitable countng device; assortmentofgraduates/spatulas/moriarand N Li 
pestles. (64B16-28.107(2)(a-dLF.A.C.J 

44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section, Li N Li OR (e).F.A.C.] 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in 

a readily avetlabte eleotroniodeta format (1), F.A.C.I N Li 45 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. (64816-27.21D.F.A.C.] N Li Li 
21 Mediceton property labeled ] N Li 46 Compounding records properly maintained (64B16-28.140(4),F,A.C.1" N Li Li 
22 All Ax medication within the Axdepartment. (64Bt6-26.120(1)F,A,C.] N Li 47 Unit dose records propetlymaintained (64816-27.410(1). F.A.C.V N Li Li 
23 COt Policy and Procedures and proof or quarterty meetngs N Li (protected under (766.101 P.S.] (84016-27.300. F.A.C.] 

24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. 
164816-28.110. FAC.J N Li with C) maybe answered n/a (not applicable). 

25 "Discard afterdais" on Ax label. (64018-28.402(l)(h),F.A.C.] N Li 
Remarks: #5 N/A #23 LAST CQI DATE:8/10/Og 

#42 LAST BIENNIAL CS INVENTORY DATE: 4/30/09 

I have read and have had this inspection report lire leers and ragulatens concerned hereIn explained, and do affirm that tie lnformaton given herein is true and correct to the best of my knoviledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT ENRIQUE MI PALLARESIPS241 03 

ID mi192 

File# 10603 

Insp# 86200 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

FLORIDA OF 

HEAL 

Institutional Representative Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 
INV 359 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

09-03-2009 
Date 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

ROUTINE C}W1GE LOC fl NEW C 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18472 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
3/17/2011 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
COSTCO PHARMACY #182 

DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

ENRIQUE N PALLARES STREET ADDRESS 
14585 8ISCAYNE BOULEVARD 

TELEPHONE U EXT. 
(407) 681-2125 

CITY COUNTY 
NORTH MIAMI BEACH 23 

STATE/ZIP 
33181 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
24103 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE U 

Monday Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 2. 

lass 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

I Rx department hours S days for 40 hours per week. 64816-20.1081, F,A.C.) C Z C 
2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 64816-27.410. F.A.C.! C Z C 
3 Pharmacist on duty when Ra department open. 84816-26.109, F.A.C.I C Z C 
4 Propersignsdisplayed. (465.025(7)), F.S.I 04016-28.109(1). 64816-28.1081, F.A.Cj(64B16-28.1035. F.A.C.] 64816-27,1001, F.A.C.] C 
5 Written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 64816-27.820(1), F.A.C.] C 
6 PrescrIption department has convenient sinvnjnning water. 64816-20,102(1). F.A.C.J C Z C 
7 Prescription department dean and safe. 64816-20.102(4), F.A.C.I C Z C 
8 Proper equipment and references as required. I64016-28.102(5Xa), F.A.C.I fl 
9 Medication property labeled. (465.0255. F.S.I 84B1 6-28.1 06. F.A.C.] C Z C 
10 COt Potcy and Procedures and quarterly meetIngs. 64810-27.300. F.A.C.J 766.101, F.S.] Z C 
11 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. (893.04(1)(c) 6, F.S.] 048'16-26.140(3)(b), F.A.C.] C C 
12 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 84818-27.800, F.A.C.I C C 
13 Conbolled substance records readily retrievable. 893.07(4) (B), F.Sj fl C 
14 All controlled substance prescriptIons contain Information required. 693.04. F.S.J C 
15 PrescrIptions may not be filled in excess of one year orsta months for controls from the date written. (693.04(1)(g), P.S.) 64816-27.211. F.A.C.] C C 
16 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. (093.07(1) (a), F.S.I C C 
17 DEA 222 order forms property completed. (893.07, F.B.I fl fl 
18 Controlled substance Ra tnfonnation in computersyslem is retrIevable. 21CFR 1306.221(893.07, F.S] (64616-28.140. F.A.CJ C Z C 
19 Controlled substance records maintained for2years. 2ICFR 1304.04] (2ICFR 1308.22] 093.07(4)(b), P.S.] C C 
20 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. (2ICFR 1306.22(b)(3)] (64816-28.140(3Xb), FAC.] C C 
21 Registered pharmacist properly prescrIbing. 64816-27.210, F,A,C.] * C Z C 
22 Compounding records properly maintained. 64B16-27.797. F.A.C.] C 
23 Unit dose records properly maintained. 485.016(1)0), P.S.] 64816-28.118, F.A.C.] C C 
24 Pedigree records retrievable. I64F-1 2,01 2(3)(a)2., (d)] C 

- Note: If establishment is engeged in parantersi/entersl compounding, a separate inspection foam should be completed. 

Remarks: Please refer to manual attachment due to tablet iasues. 

I have read and have had wis inspection report and die laws and regslathns concarrred herein explained, and do affirm that ta information herein re Use ard correct to The best of ny knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT N/A 

03-17-2011 
Institutional Representative Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Srgnature 

INV 359 Revised 1YIO. 10/Og; 5106. 12102. 12100 

FiIe# 10603 

Insp# 94563 

FLDRBJA OP 

HEALT - 

OH.STATE. FL. US 

9 
ID m1187 



FILE# 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

StRWDEP OF 

HEALT 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY— PAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES : If establishment Is engaged In.paaoteraUenteral compoundin lIcense must so Indicate and a separate Ion,, should be corn ted 

.vkrMdcc/ 1 

EXPIRATIONDATE 

DOING 

- 

TELEPHbNE NUMBER EXTENSION 

7 ' EXPIRATION DATE 

DEPARTMENT MAt4AGER NAM e 
. VENDOWWHOLESALER ARMACY 

PDM NOTIFICATION DATE LICEN (4 
VENDOR LICENSE NUMBER 

. 

REGISTERED IINTERNITECHNICIAN LICENSE NUMBER 

2 . 

3 

SATISFACTORY NA YES NO 

1. R.x department hours openS days (Dr 40 hOUrS per week. (64516.28.1081 FAG.] j7 
2. Pharmacy technicians properly Identified and supervised, approval date. 64516-27.410, F.A.C4 
3. PharmacIst on duty when Rx department open. (64816-28.108, FAG.) 
4. Proper signs displayed. (465.025(7), F.S.] (64616-28.109(1), F.A.C.J (64B16-28A081, FAG.] £64618-28.1035F.A.C.] 

64616-27.400(6), F.A.C.J — — 
' 

5. Written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 64516-27.820(1), FAG.) ' — L— 
6. Prescription department has convenient sinldrunning water. (64B18-28.102(1). F.A.C.J 

7. PrescrIptIon department clean and safe. 64816-26.102(4), F.A.CJ t— 
8. Proper eqUipmeht and references as required. 64516-28.102, FAG.] 
9. MedIcation property labeled. 465.0255, F.S.J (64B16-26.108, FAG.) 
10. CQI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetIngs. 64916-27.300, FAG. (766.101, P.S.] ] . 

11. Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(1) (o) 6, F.S.] (64B18-26.140(3) (b). FAG.) 
— 
—. 

12. Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (64618-27.800, FAG.) 
. 

13. Controlled substance records readily retrievable. 893.07 (4)(B). F.S.J 

14. All controlled substance prescriptions contain Information requIred. 893.04(1) C), ) IC.— 
15. Prescriptions may not be filled In excess of one year or sIx months (or controls from the date written. 

18g3.04(1) (g), F.S.) 64516-28.114, ] 
16. Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. (893.07(1) (a). P.S.) j/,O /// 
17. DEA 222 order forms properly completed. (893.07(2), P.S.) 

18. Controlled substance Rx information in computer system is retrievable. 2IGFR 1(893.07, F.S) (64916-28.140. F.A.C.] 
19. Controlled substance records maintained for 2 yeare. 21CFR I 304.04](2ICFR 1306.22] (893.07(4) (b), F.S.] 

g,. 

t— 

— 

20. Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. (21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)) 64516-28.140(3)(b). F.A,CJ 
21. Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. (64816-27.210. F.A.C.J fr•• 
22, Compounding records property maIntained. (64816-27.700. FAG.) 64616-28.140(4). F.A.CJ 

. 

23. Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1) (I), F.S.](64816-28.1 18, F.A.C.] 
V 
— 

* Questions with maybe answered n/a (not applicable) L * Note: If 

Remarks/2Atfl 

a 

Is engaged in parenteralienteral co 

,z2Z7C 

o/ 
lnspfl and the lawafr( re report 

mpoundlng, a separate inspectIon form should be 

n. 
Iti C, g 

gulg(ions éoncernad 

/9/LI 
to tiA best of my 

— 

knowledge. 

2 - 

of 

Print Name 
INV ass Resilsed 06109 05/07: 5)06. Replaces 02, 12/00 

INSPEGTION#_______________ UEWDcURRENflY NOr 00 CHfl10EOVNtRDI 

lnvesti9atcr. 
Wt?nber F 



TATE OF FLORIDA 
• 

. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

LX NEW NOT OPEMI1ivS OWIGE OaniZR J 
INSPECTION - CHAPTER 465.0 17, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF r?rlt ,j2. 
DOING BUSINESS AS 

PERMIT 

DEA R 

DATE 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

ire; ç3(4 
CITY 

/\ 
STATE/ZIP (7 3 ( 

MANAGER LICENSE # 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTgRED PHARMACIST/INTE NFrECI-INICIAN LICENSE U 

Monday Tuesday twednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sundy 1. 
5 j 44 e( Y 

Open F-TC 2. 

Close c7 
)__.. 

3. P 
SATISFACTORY RIA YES NO 

I Pa department hours openS days for 40 hours perweek. 64916-26.1081, F.A.C.] : 

2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 64816-27.420, F.A.C.] — 

3 Pharmacist on duly when Pa department open. (8491 1 
— 4 Propersignsdlsplayed. 465.025(7), F.S.] 64516.28.109(1), 164816-28.1081. 64616-28.1035, F.A.C.] 64B16.27.lOOt, r.A.C.l 

5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patients agent. (64816-27.820(l), F.A.C.] — 

c 
: 
r 

6 Prescription department has convenient sink/ninning water. 64816—28.102(1). r.A.Cj — . 

7 PrescrIption department dean and safe. 64816-28.102(4), F.A.CJ A 
- B Proper equipment and references as requIred. 6481 6-26.102(5Xa). F.A.C.] : 

— 9 Medication properly labeled. 465.0255. P.S.] 64916-28.108. F.A.C.] 

— - 10 ired medIcatIons removed from the shelves. (64916-28.110, F.A.C.1 

11 COlPolicy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (766.101, P.S.] 84616-27.300. ] 3 : 
12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. .Ob(4), F.S.] 

- ± 
13 PrescrIptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(lXc) 6, F.S.] F.A.C.] - 

E 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64816-27.800. - : — 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain Information required. 893.04, F.Sj — 
- t — 

16 Prescriptibns for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of 458.42(2), F.S.]. . 

17 Prescriptionsmay not befitted in excessofone yearo.- six monthaforcontrols from the date written. F.SJ (64618-27.211, F.A.C.] : : 

18 Cont-otied substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and available forinspection. 893.07(tXa), F.S.] 3 (,.Z. (4 — - 

19 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07, F.S.] . L - 

20 Controlled substance records and Pa Information In competer system Is retrievable. 2ICFR 1306.22] (64816-28.140, F.A.C.] : 
21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. (465.022(12Xb), P.S.] - 

— 
22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 2ICFR 1306.22(bX3)] 64816-2a.140(3)(b). F.A.C.] - 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any Instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or close of business on next business day of teaming of instance. 

Reports include all required information. 465.01 5(3), ] 
24 Record of theft or significant loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and Is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), F.S.] 465.015, F.S.] 

25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), ] 
26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 

(499.0121(14), P.S.] 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64916-27.210, F.A.C.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 84916-28.140(4), F.A.C.F 

29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1)Q). F.S.] (64816-28.118. FAG.] 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-12.012(3Xa)2., (d), F.A.C.] 

-Note: If establishment Is engaged in parenterai/enterat compounding, a separate tnspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: vkc(ecde- ivi_4cieicrn, C cck,Lecc/ent 
to V1-eJ5 

!# - 

C74PC4 

I have read and have had this inspection report and he laws and regtilatltns herein esplainad, and do ifirm that the information given herein is Tie and correct to the best of my ksrosledge. I have received a copy of 

the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINTNAMEOFRECIPIENT .. - , - - - - . - - 

. 4 —13 
ID 

Date Pharmacist I:Save 
NV 359 Revised 5/12, 12111, 11. 10/10,10/09, 5/06, 12102. 12100 

Insp# 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY WWW.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

FLORIDA OP 

IEAL- 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & communty efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201302905 

MICHAEL W HALFEN, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: MICHAEL W HALFEN 
748 BOULDER CREEK DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32514 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 
at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 
Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

'Ø6ard Executive 
OF PHARMACY 

V Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:l-lealthyFL.A 
4052 Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentotHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flohda throu9h integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Sur9eon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Heaithiest State In the Naflon 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 
SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Enclosed you will find materials in the 
final agency action for the February 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: 
Subjects Address of 
Record: 
Enforcement Address: 

Subject's License No: 

Licensure File No: 

Initial Licensure Date: 

Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 
Current IPN/PRN Contract: 
Allegation(s): 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Subject's Attorney: 

Complainant/Address: 

above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 

Michael W. Halfen, R.Ph. 

748 Boulder Creek Drive 
Pensacola, FL 32514 

748 Boulder Creek Drive 
Pensacola, FL 32514 

32618 Rank: PS 

21628 

7/25/1997 

None 

Yes 

No 

Section 465.016(1)(r), F.S. (2012), by violating 
Section 465.022(11)(a), ES. (2012) 

None 

June 27, 2013 
Fallon Glass 

Pro Se 

Department of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Tallahassee 

Florida D.partm.nt of Hosith 
Office of the Generai CounselS Prosecuflon Services Unft 

4052 Said Cypress Way. Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/2454444 • FAX 850/2454683 

ldasHoaith.com 
TWIUER:HealthyFtA 

FACES X: FLDepa leaith 
YOUTUBE: lldoh 

OTICLà 
HEALTH 

Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

Mary Miller, Assistant General Counsel 
Settlement Agreement 
DOH v. Michael W. Halfen, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2013-02905 

December 5, 2013 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Settlement Agreement 
Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Cost Summary 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1 - 5 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 

None 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

On 2/11/13, Respondent was the PDM of Gulf Medical Services, Inc. and responsible for ensuring the 
pharmacy complied with the rules regulating pharmacy. On 2/11/13, the Department conducted a 

routine inspection of Respondent's facility and the Department's inspector noted the pharmacy's 
sterilized high-risk preparations did not pass a sterility test or were not properly stored as required by 

board rule. The Department's inspector also noted that the pharmacy's high-risk compounding 
personnel had not completed a media-filled test with a high-risk test kit on a semi-annual basis, as 
required by board rule. 



8509833725 Gulf lservices 09:11:18 10—24—2013 319 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PFrrrI0NER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-02905 

MICHAEL W. HALFEN, R.P1L, 

RESPONDENT. 

_____________I 

St i IL.EMENT AGREEMENT 

b 

Pursuant t. Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the partIes offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

thç Adrnlnistrfllve as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative 

1. At all to this matter, Michdçl W. Mallen, R.Ph., 

was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number PS , Respondent's mailing adçjress of record is 748 

Boulder Creek Drive, Pensjjçola, Florida 32514. 

DOll V. Midiaei Halfen, R.Ph. 
Case No. 2013-02905 j 

— 

- 



Gulf Medical Ices 09:11:36 10—24—2013 4/9 

2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the Jurisdktion of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admit that the allegauons !n the Administrative 

Complaint, if prcven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to subject to dIscipline by the Board 

iTION 
1. . Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement presented to the Board under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shalt impose an administrative 

fine of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS and NO CENTS ($1,000.00). The 

fine shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

DON v, MIthaS Halfcn, R.Ph, 
Case No. 2013-02905 

2 



8509833725 Gulf scirvjces 09:11:44 10—24—2013 5/9 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the 

Final Order approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final 

Order) is filed with the Department Clerk. 

3. The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed ONE THOUSAND FOUR 

HUNDRED TWENTY SIX DOLLARS AND THIRTY-SEVEN CENTS 

($1,426.37). Total costs shall be assessed when the Settlement 

Agreement is.. presented to. the The costtihall be paid by 

Respondent to the aitment of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, In C?6, !owt Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314- 

6320, within 90 days from the cate e Final Order is filed with the 

Clerk. 

S complete a 

Continuing Educa don on the : ot laws and Rules of 

Pharmacy consisting o1a minimum of S hours. qf credit, which has 

approved by the Florida of Pharmacy, within pne (1) year of the 

filing of a Final Order accepting and incorporaing this Settlement 

Agreement. These contHijuing education hours shall be in addition to the 

OGH V. Halfen, R.Ph. 
Case No, 2013-02905 

.., 3 



8509833725 Gulf Medical Services 09:11:53 10—24—2013 6/9 

hours required for license renewal. Within ten (10) days of completion of 

the course and/or receipt of the certificate of completion, Respondent shall 

mail a copy of the continuing education certificate of completion to the 

Pharmacy Compliance Officer at the address listed in paragraph two (2) 

above. 
. 

5. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulatIon relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

6. Violation of lerm - It is expressly understoqd that a violation 

pf the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the rder of the Board of shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disdplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

DOll v. Michael Halfea, R.Ph. 
Case No. 201342905 4 



8509833725 Gulf Medical Services 09:1 2:01 10-24—2013 7/9 

8. Purtiose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence,, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any or conclusion of should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the it is agreed that 

the presentation and copsldthtlon this Settlement 4greement and other 

documents and matters the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these prqceedings. 

9, Not Preciu4e Additional Respondent and the 

Department fully. that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated Into thetinal Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not spedfically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

OCH v. llal(en, R.Ph. 
C85e No. 2013-02905 5 



8509833725 Gulf Medicalseryices O9:12:li 10—24—2013 8/9 

10. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

11. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current - Respondent shall keep current its mailing 

address and Its practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 
— 

WHEREFORE, the partiç., request that the Bqard enter a Final Order 

approving incprpfling this Se tkment in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this of . 2013 

MichàS Wj111f4 .Ph. 
NO. 

STATEOF 

0014 it Mltha& Halfen, Rib. . 
Case No. 2013-02905 6 



8509833725 Gulf Medical Services 09:12:19 10—24—2013 9/9 

COUNTY OF cSÜrytyt. 

Before me personally appeared A• L whose identity is known to 
me or by 

r), 
PrSnn i (type of identification), 

and who, under oath, aèknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this lay of Cciziker 2013. 

Notary 
Comm Exptres Aug 

MY.comrn;ssion 4 EE Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

APPROVED this day of Oc.h6t,- , 2013. 

John H. Armstrpng, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General & Secretary 
Florida Department of Health 

Mary Miller 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Department of Health 
Florida Bar Number 0780420 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
uahassee, rlQrlda 32399-3265 
Telephone: 850T245-4444, ext 8104 
Fax: 850-245-4653 
E-Mail; 

008 v. R.Ph. 
Case No. 2pt3-02905 7 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-02905 

MICHAEL W. HALFEN, R.PIL, 

RESPONDENT. 

I 

ADMINISTRATflJE COMPLAINT 

COMES Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Michael W. Halfen, and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued license 

number PS 32618. 

DOM v. Midiael Halfen, R.Ph. 
Case Na. 2013-02904 

A 



3. Respondent's address of record is 748 Boulder Creek Drive, 

Pensacola, Florida 32514. 

4. At all times material to this complaint, Respondent was the 

prescription department manager (PDM) of Gulf Medical Services, Inc. (the 

Permittee), which is a permitted community pharmacy within the state of 

Florida having permit number 16983. 

5. Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), states "{t]he 

prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's compliance 

with all rules adopted under those chapters as they relate to the practice 

of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs." 

6. As the PDM, Respondent was responsible for ensuring the 

Permittee complied with the following Rules: 

a. Rule 64316-27.797(1 )(i)(4), Florida Administrative 

Code, which provides the standard of practice for 

storing High-Risk Level compounded sterile 

preparations (CSPs), cannot exceed specified time 

periods enumerated in the Rule; 

b. Personnel authorized to compound high-risk 

compounded sterile preparations (CSPs), had not 

UGH c Michael lialfen, R.Ph. 
2 Case No. 2013-02904 



completed a media-filled test with high-risk test kit on 

a semi-annual basis. 

I 
7. On or about February , 2013, a Department inspector 

conducted a routine inspection of the Permittee at its business address of 

6776 Caroline Street, Milton, Florida 32570. 

8. On or about February 11, 2013, the Department inspector 

noted the following deficiencies: 

a. Sterilized high-risk preparations did not pass a sterility 

test or preparations were not properly stored as 

required by Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(i)(4), Florida 

Administrative Code; and/or 

b. Personnel authorized to compound high-risk 

compounded sterile preparations (CSPs), had not 

completed a media-filled test with high-risk test kit on 

a semi-annual basis. 

9. Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted 

pursuant thereto, constitutes grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary 

action. 

bDH v, Michael Halfen, R.Ph. 
3 

Case c. 2013-02904 



10. Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's 

compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they relate to 

the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription 

drugs. 

11. Respondent failed to ensure the Permitee's compliance with the 

rules regulating pharmacy in one or more of the following ways: 

a. By failing to ensure the permittee complied with Rule 

64B16-27.797(flQ)(4), Florida Administrative Code, as set forth 

in paragraph 8 above; and/or 

b. By failing to ensure the permittee complied with Rule 

64B16-27.797(1)(i)7, Florida Administrative Code, as set forth 

above in paragraph eight above. 

12. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 

465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to ensure the 

permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they 

relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of 

prescription drugs. 

DOH v. Miciia& Mallen, R.Ph. 
4 Case No. 20t3-02904 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties; 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

day of 
aLUst.L 2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Mary S. MilIdr 
Assistant General Counsel 

FLLED DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

DEPUTY CLERK Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 CLERK Anpelsanifers 
DATE 2 7 2013 na. oar . 

(850) 245-4444, ext. 8104, telephone 
(850) 245-4683 fax 
Mar-v E-Mail 

PCP: 13 
PCP t4mbers: Fo..flort-+- Gloss 

DOH 'i. Michael -laffen, R.Ph. 
5 

Case No. 2013-02904 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecuijon of this mailer. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Michael ,, k.Ph. 

6 
Case No. 



To protect, promote & improve the health 

mcli Scoff Mission: 
I Governor 

of all people in Fbdda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. IUU 

I 
John H. Annatrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH 
I 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

December 5, 2013 

Michael W. Halfen 
748 Boulder Creek Drive 
Pensacola FL 32514 

Re: DON vs. Michael W. Halfen, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-02905 

Dear Mr. Halfen: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by you on October 23, 2013 concerning 
the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next regularly 
scheluled meeting of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. You will receive official notification from the 
Board of the date and time your case is set for hearing approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

- 

Mary S. Miller 
Assistant General Counsel 

MSM/cmn 

Florida Department of Health 
www.FiorldasHeaith.com Office of the General CounselS Prosecution Services t 

1fliR:HeaIthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealm Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 
YGUTUBE: fidoh PHONE: 8501245-4444 'FAX 850/245-4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201302905 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: HALFEN, MICHAEL W 

OTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 12/4/2013 

____________________ [ 

***** Cost to Date 

____________________ [ 
Hours Costs 

Complaint: 
[ 1 

investigation: 
I .501 1 : j ,241 

'Compliance: 

I t**t******I 
Sub Total: 7.50 1 
lExpenses to Date: I 
Prior Amount: l 
ITotal Costs to Date: 51 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Michael Halfen, R.Ph. (MSM) 
Case Number: 2013-02905 

MEMBERS: Lee Fallon and Debra Glass 

DATE OF PCP: June 27, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-3 . 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 2(11)(a), Florida 
Stattues (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

27/2013 
Chair, Probabktausetanel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area I Pensacola Date of Case: 2/15/13 Case Number: PS 2013-02905 
Subject: 

MICHAEL W. HALFEN, RPh, Pharm. D. 
748 Boulder Creek Dr. 
Pensacola, FL 32514 
(850) 994-0430 

. 

Source: 

DOH/ISU TALLAHASSEE 
JOHN TAYLOR, SENIOR PHARMACIST 
4030 lanade Way 
Tallahassee, FL 33901 
(850)519-1181 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 

PS 32618 PHARMACIST PHARMACY 4/18/13 

Period of Investigation: 2/27/13 — 4/18/13 Type of Report: FINAL 

Alleged Violation: FS 456.072(1)(dd) Violating any provision of this chapter... 465.016(1)(r) Violating any provision of this 
chapter... FAC 64B16-27.797 (CSPs} (1)(i) 4. For properly stored sterilized high-risk preparation, in the absence of 
passing a sterility test, the storage periods cannot exceed the following time periods: before administration, the CSPs are 
properly stored and exposed for not more than 24 hours at controlled room temperature, and for not more than 3 days at 
a cold temperature (2-8 degrees Celsius) and for not more than 45 days in solid frozen state at -20 degrees celsius or 
colder. 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint, and Class II Institutional Pharmacy, Standards of 
Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs) inspection forms and Case Summary EXHIBIT ) submitted by 
Senior Pharmacist JOHN TAYLOR in regard to HALFEN reporting HALFEN is the PDM for Gulf Medical Pharmacy. 
Senior Pharmacist TAYLOR conducted a routine inspection of Gulf Medical Services Inc, d.b.a. Gulf Medical Pharmacy, 
a Community Pharmacy located at 6776 Caroline Street, Milton, FL 32570, on 2/11/2013. Findings of inspection alleged 
violation for failure to provide evidence of sterility for dispensed high risk preparation for which an extended beyond use 
date (20 days with storage at room temperature) was assigned. Findings further alleged failure to provide evidence that 
compounders of high risk preparations have successfully completed a high risk media test within the last six months. 

HALFEN was notified of the investigation by letter dated 2/27/13 and was provided a copy of the case 
summary and the originating documentation from EXHIBIT I EXHIBIT . 
A check of Department computer records revealed HALFEN is currently licensed as a consultant pharmacist 
(PU4936) and as a pharmacist. HALFEN received his BS in Marketing & Business Administration at Nicholls 
State University and his Doctor of Pharmacy at Xavier University of Louisiana (years not provided). HALFEN 
provided a copy of his CV which is attached as EXHIBIT 5. 

There was no patient involved in this case; therefore, notification was not required. % 

HALFEN is not know to be represented by attorney in this matter. , 
On 3/13/13, Investigator RICHARD received HALFEN's response statement and 

at ISU Pensacola EXHIBIT . HALFEN admitted the allegations and to 
correct the allegations. 

Related Case: PH 2013-02904 

Investigator/Date: / 3 Aoproved By/Date: 
. 

Lloyd . Richard, 81-27, Investigator Cathy ivrartin, Investigator upervisor / - 

2 Q 
Distribution: HO/ISU/PSU 'Page 1 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2013-02905 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

II. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 : 
Statementilnterview of MICHAEL W. HALFEN, RPh, Pharm. 0. (Subject)(Exhibit 5) 3-5 

IV. EXHIBITS 
* 

1. Case Summary, DOH/MQA complaint and pharmacy inspection forms 6-12 

2. Copy of notification letter mailed to HALFEN dated 2/27/13 with enclosures 13-19 

3. Pharmacy inspection forms completed on 3/20/12, 1/10/11 and 12/22/09 20-25 

4. CQI meeting for st Quarter 2013 26-27 

5. HALFEN's response (not dated) received on 3/13/13 with attachments 28-42 

* RECORDS CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFY PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

INV FCSRM 300. Revised 02108, GreatS 102 Paae 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: Ps 2013-02905 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Complaint was found during routine inspections by Senior Pharmacist TAYLOR for Community Pharmacy and 
Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs) at Gulf Medical Pharmacy on 2/11/13. 
Items 1 and 2 were not complied with on the CSPs inspection form. 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT I is information forwarded by the Consumer Services Unit (CSU) to ISU. This information consists of a 
Case Summary and the following: 

• IDOHJTvIQA complaint form completed by the Senior Pharmacist Inspector TAYLOR who provided: 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 2/11/13; no deficiencies. 
• Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs) inspection form completed on 

2/11/13; items 1 and 2 were found deficient; item 1 - example found of high risk compounded product 
dispensed with a five day beyond use date with no evidence of sterility testing of product prior to 
dispensing; item 2— compounding staff has not completed high risk media fill testing. 

• IV Worksheet on Rx #02001856 for Hydromorphone HCL power 2500 mg / 500 ml dated 2/8/13 
compounded with sodium CHL 0.9% 

• Medication label for Rx #02001856 for Hydromorphone HCL 2500 mg / 500 ml; no refills, discard after 
2/28/13. 

EXHIBIT 3 was printed by Investigator RICHARD from COMPAS. Exhibit included: 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 3/20/12; no deficiencies. 
• Standards of Practice for CSPs inspection form completed on 3/20/12; no deficiencies. 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 1/10/11; no deficiencies. 
• Sterile Products and Special-Parenteral Enteral Compounding Pharmacy form completed on 1/10/11; no 

deficiencies. 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 12/22/09; no deficiencies. 
• Sterile Products and Special-Parenteral Enteral Compounding Pharmacy form completed on 12/22/09; no 

deficiencies. 
All the above inspections passed. 

EXHIBIT 4 was provided to Investigator RICHARD by HALFEN on 4/17/13. Exhibit included Quarter CQI 
meeting notes. No issue with CSPs. 

STATEMENT/INTERVIEW OF MICHAEL W. HALFEN. RPH. PHARM. D. - : 
Address of record: 
748 Boulder Creek Dr. 
Pensacola, FL 32514 
Residence telephone: (850) 994-0430; (850) 206-9736 (C) 
Address of Employment: 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 
6776 Caroline Street 
Milton, FL 32570 
Employment telephone: (850) 983-3705 

On 3/5/13, HALFEN left a voice message to return his call. On 3/5/13, Investigator RICHARD contacted 
HALFEN at (850) 983-3705. HALFEN stated he would come to ISU Pensacola on 3/7/13. 

- ._. 

INV FORM 300. 02/08. created f Paqe 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2013-02905 

On 3/7/13, HALFEN presented to the ISU Pensacola office. Investigator RICHARD interviewed HALFEN in 
person. HALFEN stated he took action to correct the issues on 2/11/1 3, the same day of the pharmacy 
inspection. He has a reminder on his Outlook calendar for dates of test. In regard to the violation of personal 
aseptic technique testing with high risk media; he thought he was using the only test available. When he called 
his supplier for a test kit the supplier had to call around to find the new USP format. He ordered the test kit the 
same day and started testing upon receipt. 

The high risk preparations are compounded PCA infusions that are dispensed to hospice patients and are usually 
infused over a period of 7 to 10 days unless the patient expires. He is contact with the Covenant Hospice and 
made staff aware of labeling discard date, stability and sterility issues. He will provide a written response 
EXHIBIT . 
On 3/13/13, Investigator RICHARD received HALFEN's response statement and attachments via hand service 
at ISU Pensacola EXHIBIT . 
This letter is in response to the allegations of the pharmacy inspection of 2/11/13. He has 16 years of pharmacy 
practice during which he has not been cited for any violation. With regard to the violation of personal aseptic 
technique testing with high risk media, he has over the past 3 years been testing the compounding technicians 
semi-annually with what was to his knowledge the only PATT (Personal Aseptic Technique Test) available on the 
market. After being notified by the pharmacy inspector on this second inspection with the new USP formatted 
form (previous inspection 3/20/1 2) that this was not satisfactory, he contacted his two infusion suppliers, who also 
had to call their suppliers to find a valid high risk media fill kit which he immediately ordered and has implemented 
with the compounding technicians (see attachment completion dates). 

The allegation of failure to provide evidence of sterility for a dispensed high risk preparation with an extended 
beyond use date brought forth an issue that could not be adequately answered by the inspector. These high risk 
preparations are compounded PCA infusions that are dispensed to hospice patients and are usually infused over 
a period of 7 to 10 days unless the patient expires sooner. Thus labeling these infusion bags with a 3 day or less 
expiration would not be accurate since this time period only applies to the storage prior to administration per USP 
797, and the rule (64B16-27.797(1)(i)4. The issue therefore is the rule and the rule's use of USP 797 addresses 
concems about sterility prior to administration and NOT stability of the preparation after administration has 
begun. The beyond use or discard after date that was assigned to the infusion was based on independent lab 
testing of stability and sterility of the previous sampling as part of their QA program (see attached lab reports). 
To become compliant with the rule, he had to immediately change his labeling of these products to reflect a "Start 
Infusion B/ date that is within the Rule and USP 797 guidelines (see attached example). However this still does 
not address the labeling of stability on these preparations. 

HALFEN asked if there should there be additional labeling with a "Discard after" date to address this issue since 
clinically they would not want the infusion running on a patient - for example — for a month thereby exceeding an 
established stability and very possibly a sterility window? Since his care for the patient does not end when the 
administration beginé, he feels this issue warrants some additional ruling or direction. 

He does not feel the previous QA program was sub-par. In light of this inspection he has substantially increased 
their testing of their compounding personnel, compounding environment, and their products to further insure the 
safety of their patients (see attached testing schedule). He takes the safety of their patients seriously and he is 
dedicated to remaining compliant with the rules of his profession. 

Attachments to response statement: 
1. HALFEN's Curriculum Vitae — HALFEN received his BS in Marketing & Business Administration at 

Nicholls State UniVersity and his Doctor of Pharmacy at Xavier University of Louisiana (years not 
provided). 

LWV FORM 300; Revised 02/Pt created 7102 Paae 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS 2013-02905 

2. Investigator RICHARD signed receipt of documents from HALFEN on 3/13/13. 
3. Testing Schedule 2013 for personnel with dates. 
4. Pharmacy Label for Morphine indicating start infusion by date (example), 
5. Certificate of Analysis on Morphine Sulfate 1 mg/mI, lot #2001289; date tested 4/23/12. 
6. Certificate of Analysis on Morphine Sulfate 1 I, lot #2001289; date tested 3/26/12. 
7. Certificate of Analysis on Hydromorphone 1 mg/mI, lot #081106H1, received on 8/17/06. 
8. Microbiology Report on Hydromorphone I mg/mI, lot #081 106H1 test results, received on 8/17/06. 
9. Certificate of Analysis on Morphine Sulfate 10 mg/mI, lot #0811 06M1 0, date tested 8/28/06. 
10. Microbiology Report on Morphine Sulfate 10 mg/mI for lot #0811 06M1 0, results date tested 9/5/06. 
11. Certificate of Analysis on Baclofen 2 mg/mI, lot #07121 OMH; tested 9/13/10. 
12. Microbiology Report on Baclofen 2 mg/mI, lot #071210MH; tested 8/11/10. 
13. Blank Testing Schedule (new management form for CSPs testing requirements). 
14. HALFEN's business card. 

NV FORM 300, Revised 02/08. Created 7/02 Page 5 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


a 
FiIe# 10801 

Insp# 105809 

PLORIDA DEPARTMBNT 

WWW.DOH STATE. FL. 118 

I have read and have had this Inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and da affirm that the iritormaton given herein is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I have received a copy of 
the Ucansee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, RPI1 

03-20-2012 .9 3 
Date Investrg - Pharmacisn Signature 

ID c120 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

ROUTINE NEW cUrmENI1.Y OWNER fl 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456:FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
(2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 
BG7912771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Street 

TELEPHONE U EXT. 
850-983-3705 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. Donna Plttman P58832 

Open 8am 8am Sam Sam 8am closed closed 2. George Anderson PS 12203 
Close 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 3. Tiffany Denham RPT 29518 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES 
I Rx department hours openS days for 40 hours perweek. 64B16-28.1081, FAG.] : - 
2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 64816-27.420, F.A.C.] 

3 Pharmacist on duty when Rx department open. 64816-28.109. F.A,C,] 

4 Propersignsdisplayed. 64B16-26.1061, F.A.CJ 64616-28.1035, 64B16-27.lOol, FAC.] 
5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient orthe patient's agent. (l), P.A.C.] 

- - 

— - 

6 Prescription department has convenient sinldrunning water. 64816-28.102(1), F.A.C.] 

7 Prescription department clean and safe. 64816-28.102(4), F.A.C.] 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. 02(SXa), F.A.C.] 

- 

— 

— 

9 Medication property labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] 64816-28.108, F.A.C.] 

- 

— 
>< 

10 Expired medications removed from the shelves. 164816-28.110. F.A.C.] — 
>< 

It COI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 101, F.S.] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.] 

12 Soard-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 465022(4), F.S.] 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists, 893.04(lXc)6, F.S.] 64B16-28.140(3)(b), FAC,] 

— 
- ).( 

: 
— a. 

14 Pharmacy maintaIns patient profile records. 64B16-27.800. F.A.C.] : 
15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information raqulred. 893.04. r.S.] 

: 

. 

— . 
16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfoil-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Departhient-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of 456.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 893.04(I)(g). F.S.] 64B16-27.21 1, F.AC.) — 
- a : 

18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for Inspection. 1693.07(lXa). F.S,] : - 

19 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07, F.S.] 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer system is rethevable. 21CFR 1306.22] 64916-28.140. FAG.] — 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 465.022(12)(b), F.S.] 

22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 2ICFR 1306.22(bR3)] 64B16-28.140(3)(b). F.A.C.] 

— K 
: �.. : 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or close of business on next business day of leaming oI instance. 
Reports include all required information. 465.015(3). F.S,] 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriff wIthin 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), F.S.] 465.015. F.S.] 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), F.SJ 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14), FS.) 

27 Registered phannacist properly prescrIbing. 64816-27.210. F.A.C.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64816-27.700, F.A.Cr 
29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1)Q), FS.] 64816-28,118, F.A.C.] 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-t2,012(3){a)2,, (d), F.A.C.) 

Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: Melissa McGuffey RPT 18664: Joy Patterson RPT37779; Sharon F0rtRPT2762O. Rita Jones - Tech TraInee: Yvonne Lee - Tech Trainee. DEA expires 9-30-2014. #2 
Tech ratio letter 11-10-2005, #11 Last DI meeting 2-3-2012. #12 Future Requirement. #18 CS inventory 1-30-2012. #22 Printout. #23 None since 7-1-2011. #24 None 
since 7-1-2011. 
No outpatient CII prescriptions. 
Batch compounding. No compounding for practitioner office stock. 
Rx drug suppliers: McKesson-!_akeland, Anda-Weston; Medisca (23:1911). 

Institutional Representative 
CMV 359 Revised 1Z'l 1, 10/11, gil, 10110, 10/09. 5/06,12/02, 12100 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 12 
DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER I 2771 
PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Sfreet 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 
850-983-3705 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Types of sterile compounding prepared (orexpected to prepare) per 64616-27.797, FAG.], Undersigned pharmacist attests: 

a) High-RIsk Level CSPs (If yes. must complete items 5 & 6 -may not answer N/A) — 

b) immediate Use CSPs (If yes, must complete Items 7 & 8 - may not answer N/A) — 
- 

c) Low-Risk Level CSPs (if yes. must complete Items 9 & 10 'may not answer N/A) — 

d) Medium-Risk CSPS — 

e) Antlneoplsstic Drugs (Cytotoxlns) (if yes, must complete items 18, 19,20 & 22 - may not answer N/A) — 
>< 

2 All sterile compounds prepared in barrier isolator? if yes. may answer NAto 3b, 3c, 3d, 4, & 21. 64B16-27.797(5){e), F.A.C.I : 3 Compounding environment appropriate for Risk Level (certification by independent qualified organization). 
a) Barrier Isolator? 

CX — 
b) Anteroom/Ante area? — 

- )( 
c) Buffer Ares (Clean Room)? : : d) Laminar Air Flow Hood(s)? - — 

4 Buffer area does not contain sinks and drains. 64816-27.797(1)(f), F.A.C.] 
- 

— 

6 Sterilized high-risk preparations pass sterility test OR preparations are properiy stored, prior to administration, not exceeding time periods specified in rule. 
6481 6-27.797(1)0), F.A.C.] 

Personnel authorized to compcijnd high-risk-level CSPs completed a media-filled test edthin the past6 months (semiannually). (64B16.27.797(lXi),F.A.C.] 
7 Preparation time does not exceed 1 hour wt,en preparing immediate use CSPa. 64916-27.797(lyJ), FAG.] 
8 Preparation is properiy labeled if preparer does not administer orwihneas adminisb-ation when preparing immediate-use CSPs. 64816-27.797(1) i) FAG.] 
9 Storage recommendations in tiles are not exceeded when preparing low-risk CSPs. 7.797(IXn), F.A.C.] 
10 Personnel authorized to compound law-risk level CSPs completed a media-filled test edthin the past 12 months. 648t6-27.797(1)(n), FAG.] 
11 P & P indudes use ofsingie/muitidose containers not to exceed 797 guidelines. 64616.27-797(4), F.A.C,] 

12 P & P includes verification of compounding accuracy and sterility. 64816-27.797(4), FAG.) 
13 P & P indudes personnel training and evaluation in aseptic manipulation skills. 64516-27.797(4), FA.C.] 
14 P & P includes environmental quality and cont-ol. 64B16-27.797(4), FAG.] 
15 Appropriate disposal containers. 646t 6-27.797(5), FAG.] 
16 Appropriate temperature and tansport devices. 64616-27.797(5), F,A.C.] 

17 Adequate supplies (gloves, mask, etc.) to preserve a suitable environment for aseptic preparation, 6.4816-27.797(5), FAG,] 
18 Spill kits for antneopissdc agent spills if required. 64816-27.797(5), F.A.C.] 

19 Current reference material (hard-copy or on-line). 64516-27.797(5); and 64B16-27.797(1X2), F.A.C.) 

20 All preparations are compounded in a vertical flow, Class liar biological safety cabinet. 64616-27.797(6), FAG.] 
21 Protective apparel requirements are met. 64B16-27.797(6), FAG.) 
22 Disposal of antineoplaslic waste meets all applicable requirements. (64B16-27,79N6), FAG.] 
23 Documented on-going quality assurance, 64616-27.797(7), F.A.C.] 

24 Quality assurance audits at regular planned intervals. 64816-27.797(7), FAG) 
25 Compounding personnel skilled and trained based on observation. 64816-27.797(7), FAG] 
Remarks: #3 ENV Services testing & Certification, 4758 Research Drive, San Antonio, TX 78240. (February 15, 2012.) 

I have read and have had this report and the laws and regulations concerned herein arid do affirm that the inlomtaion given herein is the beat of my kno'Medge. I have rece'wed a copy 
of (lie Ucensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, APh 

institutional Representative 
iN's' 7g7 Revised 12/it Created 6/11 

- 03-20-2012 
Date investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ID ci2O 

File # 1 1 
Insp# 105809 

Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations ) FL US 
INE icE NEW NOT 1ING CEWIGE OWNeR Q 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465,017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

FLORfl DEPARTMENT OP 

HEALT 



lnsbtulional 
'NV 359 Revised 01107 Replaces 12/02 

FiIe# 10801 

Insp# 96803 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY WWW.DOH.STATE.FL.US 
RcUTLNE C1W4C5 L000 NEW cURRENTLY NOT C Owl/ER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note; If establishment Is engaged In parenteral/enteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection form should be conipleted 

FLORIDA OF 

HEALT 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/1012011 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 
BG791 2771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Street 

TELEPHONE # I EXT. 
850-303-3705 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARSAACIST/INTERNITECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday I Sunday 

Open 
I 

8:30am 
I 

830am 
i 

8:30am 8:30am 8:30am closed closed 
Close 

I 
4:30pm 

I 

4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 
I 

1. Donna Pittman Ps 8932 

2. Elloiti Roberts PS 8262 

3. George Anderson PS 12203 
SATISFACTORY f'UA YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

I Current pharmacy permit displayed. 465.015(lXa),F,S.] 26 All medicinal drug Rx's require date dispensed. 
140(3)(b)2,F.A.C.j N 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified In writing of current Ric department 
manager. (465.018,F.S.] 

27 Prescription records the responsible dispensing pharmacists. 
64B16-28.140(3Xb)7,F.A.C.] N C 

3 Current DEAregistaton. I2ICFR 1301.11) 465.023(1)(c),F,S,] 28 Complete pharmacy prescriptionrecords. 140,F.A.C.] N c:i 
4 Rx department hours open for business are Posted and are a minimum N C 29 Pharmacy maintains pattent profile records. 64916-27.800,F,A.C,] N C of 40 hours per week. 64616-28.404, F.A.C.] 
5 Interns properly registered and supervised, 465.013,F.S.] N Q 64B1 6-26.400(4),F.A.C.] 30 Controlled substance records readily retrievable. 893.07,F.S.) N C 
6 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 31 Initials of pharmacist filling cont-oted substance Rx. 10,F,A,C,] 893.04(lXc)6,F.5.] N C 
7 Proper pharmacist technician ratio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 32 Prescribers name/addressiogA#on all controlled substance Rx. 

Board of Pharmacy approval. (64816-27.410] 64616-27.420, FA.C.] N C 
8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. z 64816-27.100(1)F.A.C.) 

33 Patlenfs name/address on controlled substance Rx. 
Xc)1,F.S,] N J 

Pharmacist on duly when P.s department open. 64B16-28.109.F.A.C, C 34 Date controlled substance ftc was filled on 
(893 04(lXc)6,F S.] N C 

10 Generic drug sign displayed. 465.025(7).F.S.] N C 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have; drug prescribed, 
quantity and directions for use. 893.04(I)(c)4,F,S.) N U 

11 Sign displayed Dept Closed if establishment is open and P.s N C Department closed. 64816-28.109(1).F.A,C,] 
36 Date of reels written on controlled substance R.s or on computer records. 

893.04(lXc)6,F.S.] N C 
12 Sign wIth meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour), and 

slating that a pharmacist Is available on premises for consultation upon N :] request. 6481 6-27.400(6),F,A.C.]' 

37 Pharmacisfs initials on controlled substance P.t refills. 
893.04(1)( c)6.F.S.] N C 

13 Sign desIgnating the private patient consultation area N C 38 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 within 6 months from date ,1035.F.A.Cj prescription was signed. N C 
14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 

64816-27.820,F.A.C.] for Inspection. (893.07(lXa),F.S.] N C 
15 Adequate patient counseltrg by pharmacist when offer Is accepted. 

40 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 893.07(2),F.S.] J ) 
16 P.s dept. has sink/running water convenIent to P.s dept. N C 16-28.102,F.A.C.} 

41 Controlled substance i information in computer system is rebtevable 
CFR 1306.22] 893.07,F.S] 64B16-28,140.FA.C.J ' N C 

17 Prescription department has drug refngeration storage, N C 42 Càntrolled substance records maintained for 2 years. 
64816-28.104.F.A.C.] CFR 1304.04 & 1306.22) N C 

18 Prescription department clean and safe. 64616-28,105,F,A.C.] N C 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. ) N C 
19 P.s balance and weights or electronic balance: counting tray or other J 44 Certified daIly log OR printout maintained as required by section. C N C suitable counting device: assortment of graduates/spatulas/mortar and 

64616—28.1 OR (e),F.A.C.J pestles. (64816—28.107(2)(a-d),F.A.C.) 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in C a readily available electonicdata format (1), F.A.CI 45 Registered pharmacist property prescribing. 64B16-27.210,F.A,Cj 
- N C C 

21 Medication property labeled (64B16-27.10I,FA.C.] N C 46 Compounding records property maintained 54816-28.140(4),F.A.Cj C N C 
22 All Ri medlcationwithinthe Rx department. 64816-28.12o(1),F.A.C.] N C 47 Unit dose records propemlymaintained 64B16-27.41D(1), F.A.a) C N C 
23 CDI Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterty meetings N C (protected under 1766.101 ,F.S.J 64916-27.300, F.A.C.] 

. 

24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. N C 64816-28.110, ] Questions with C) may be answered nfa (not applicable). 
25 Discard aflendale on P.s label. 64816-28.402('t)(h),F,A.C.] 

. N C 
Remarks: Sarah Steele P538813. Tiffany Denham RPT29518; Edward liano RPT26662; Derek Luke RPT 27889. #3 DEA expires 9-30-2011. #5 NA.fi7 Tech ratio letter 

11-10-2005. #23 Last CDI meeting 10-14-2010. #39 CS inventory 1-14-2010. #43 NA. #44 PrtnfouL P.s drug purchases McKesson-Lakeland and Medisca. 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regtlations herein explained, and do affirm that the intomiafion given herein 'a true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, RPh 

01-10-2011 
Date 

.Q 
ID 

Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

STERILE PRODUCTS AND SPECIAL-PARENTERAL 
ENTERAL COMPOUNDING PHARMACY 

FLORIDA DFPARrMENr 0 

WWW.DOH STATE. FLUS 

INE CIWIGE LX NEW CURRENTLY NOT CHANGE OWNER DI 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.0 17. CHAPTER 893.09 CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/10/2011 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 
8GT912771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 CarolIne Street 

TELEPHONE # I EXT. 
850-893-3705 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
MILTON SANTA ROSA 

/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday 'Tuesday Iwednesdayl Thursday I Friday I Saturday I Sunday 

Open 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 6:30am closed closed 

I. community inspection form 

2. 
Close 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 3. 

SATISFACTORY Ps/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Current sterile products and special parenterallenteralcompounding 

pharmacy permit displayed. 64816-28.82, F.A.C.] Z C] 
19 Current chapter of Florida Statutes: 465 and 499 and 893, and Board Rules 

64616-28.820(5)(e)1-4,F.A.Cj Z C 
2 Board of Pharmacy notified In writing of current ftc deparmient manager. 

6-28.820(3)(a), F.A.C.] Z ] 20 CurrenlUnited StatesPhamracopoeia & National Formular'y or Remington 
Pharmaceutical Sciences or U.S. Dispensatory along with the latest 
ajpplernentals or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the C professional practice need of the pharmacy AND a current authoritative 
therapeulic reference. (64616-28.820(5Xe)5,F.A. 

3 Current DEA registration. 2ICFR 1301.11] 1465.023(lXc),F.S.] N 
4 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. 64B16-2T.100(t),F.A.C.] N C 21 Current edition of the Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Sodely of 

Healthsystem 64BI6.28.820(5Xe)6,FAC.] N l] 
5 Interns property registered and supervised. 465.01 3.F.S.] 

640t6-26.400,F.A,C.] N C 22 Pharmaceutical stock examined at least every four months and 
deteriorated or outdated items removed. (64816-28.1 1,F.A.CJ N 

6 Proper pharmacist technician ratio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 
Boardof Pharmacy approval. 64616-27.410.F.A.C.] 64B16-27.420.F.A.C.] 23 Medication properly labeled. 64816-27.101.F.A,C.] C] 

7 Pharmacy tedinicians property Identified and supervised. 
64B16-27.400,F.A.C3 N 11 

24 olscard After date provided on prescription label. 
64B1628.402(IXh),F.A.C.] N 

25 Written offer to counsel. 64916-27.820,F.A.C.] 

B Prescription area set apart for slertle prescriptions from general 
work/storage area/adequately air-conditioned or under positive pressure. N i:i 6461 6-2 8.8 20(5 )(b)1 ,F .A.C 

26 Special handling/packing/labelingjdelivei'y of prescriptions with telephone N C accessibility to pharmacist atall hours. 64B16-28.820(3Xb).F.A.C,] 

9 Wortdng sink convenient to the clean room. (64B16-26.820(SXc)3.F.A.C.] 
27 Licensed pharmacist certifies accuracy of final preparation and documents 

in a manner that responsibilty can be haced to the pharmacist. N C 648 16-27.400(2XcXd),F.A.C.] 

10 Re*igeratiortffteezer/slnk'appmpdate waste containers for used needles/ 

C syringes. 64B16-28.820(5Xc)2,qa),F.A.C.] 
28 Cal Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings c z C (protected under 768.101,F,S] 64816-27300,F.Ac.] 

11 Gloves/masks/gowns/various standard sizes of needles/synnges/ 
disinfectant cleaning agent/clean towels. (64618-28.820(5)(d)1-4,F.A.C.] 

29 Prescitbers name/address/DEA 4 on all controlled substance prescription. 
P.S. N i:i 

12 BacterIal hand-washing materials/vacuum containers and various transfer 
sets, spill kits for cytotoxic agent spills. 64B16—28.820(5gc)5-F.A.C.] 

30 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance prescriptions on 
prescription. 893.04(lXc)6,F.5.] N £11] 

13 Appropriate waste containers for all cytotoxic waste including apparel used 

C in prescriptions. 64a16-28.820(6)(c)4b,F.A.C.] 
31 Controlled substance inventory taken on biennial basis and available for 

inspection. 893.07(1)(a),F.S.J N C 
14 Certified horizontal or vertical laminar airflow hood(s). 

64016-28.820(3Xe)F.A.C.] C] 32 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.O7.F.S.] C 
IS Certified vertical laminar airflow hood used for cytotoxina. ' 

. N 1111 C 33 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. z {64916-28,140(3)(c) or(e),F.A.C.1 

16 Board approved policy and procedure manual available for inspection. 
6461 628.820(3)(d.F.A.C.] N C 34 DIspensing done pursuant to prescriptions withpatient profiles maintained. 

F.A.C. N C 
17 Separate manual/equipmentthanding procedures and protection for 

personnel itcytotoxicagenis are dispensed. F.A.C N C 35 Results of quality assurance program available for inspection. 
(64B16-28.82o(3)(D), F.A.C C 

18 Practice Guidelines for Persormel Dealing With Cytotoxic Drugt. 
(64B16-28.820(5Xe)7, F.A.C. . N Questions with *may.be answered rn/a (not applicable). 

Remarks: See community Inspection form fordetails. #12, #13, #15, #17, & #18 - No cytotoxins prepared. Hoods certified 12-29-2010. 

01-10-2011 

File# 10801 

Insp # 96803 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and reguiathns concerned herein explained, and do affino thai the inlormaton given In is this aad correct to the best ol my bio'Medge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halferi,;RPh 

Institutional Representative Date 
1W 364 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12102 

Investigator/sr. i signature 

ID ci2O 



Institutional Representative 
It/V 359 Revised /07 Replaces 12/02 

FLORIDA DEPAfltWffiNT 

File # 10801 

Insp# 88189 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY a 0KW10E tocjj NEW NOT OPEMTING 1W/GE OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 M4D CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Nate: If establistiment is engaged in parenterallenteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection farm should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
12/22/2009 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL VITAL CARE;GULF MEDICAL PHA 

DEA NUMBER 
BG7912771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Street 

TELEPHONE 4 I EXT. 
850-983-6705 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
MILTON 167 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT K&NAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 4 
Monday Tuesday IWednesdayl Thursday I Friday I Saturday I Sunday 

Open 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am closed closed 

I . Amanda McClure PTech 

2. Kelly Ward PTech 
Close 

I 
4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 430pm 3. Derek Luke PTech 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Current pharmacy permit displayed. (465.015(l)(a),F.S,] 26 All medicinal drug Rx's require date dispensed. 

164B16-28.140(3Xb)2,F.A.C.] Z C 
2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current Rx departhient 27 Prescription records Identify the responsible dispensing pharmacIsts. 

manager, 465.018,F.S.] 64B18-28.140(3Xb)7,F.A.C.] 
3 Current DEA registration. (2ICFR 1301,11] 5.023(lXc).F.S.] Z C 28 Compdete pharniacyprescription records. (64B16-28.140,F.A.C.] C 
4 Rx department hours open for business are posted and are a minimum C of 40 hours per week. 64616-28.404, F.A.C.] 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64B16-27.800,F.A.C.] 

5 Intems properly registered and supervised. (465.013,F.S.] Z (648 16-26.400(4),F.A.Cj 30 Controlled substance records readily retrievable. 893.07,F.S.] Z C 
6 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 31 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance R,x. 

916-27.4'tO,F,A,C.] 893.04(1)(c)6,F.S.] Z J 
7 Proper pharmacist technician ratio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 

Board of Pharmacy approval. 64B16-27.410] (64816-27.420, F.A.C.) 
32 Prescriber's nama/address/DEA 4 on all contiolled substance Rx. 

1893.04(lXc)2,F.S.] Z C 
8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. C (64B16-27.100(t)F.A,C,) 

Patienfs name/address on controlled substance Rx. 
1893.04(1Xc)1,F.S.] Z C] 

9 Pharmacist on duty when Rx department open. (64816-28.109,F,A.C. Z C 34 Date controlled substance Rx was filled on Rx 
(893.04(I)(c)8,F 5] C 

10 Generic drug sign displayed. 465.025(T),F.S.] Z 35 .AJl controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed, 
quantity and directions for use. 693.O4(lXc)4,F.S.] Z 

11 Sign displayed Rx Dept Closed if establishment is open and Ra 
Department closed. (64B16-28.109(1),F.A.C.] 

36 Date of refills written on controlled substance Ra or on computer records. 
(893.04(1){c)6,F.S.j Z C 

12 Sign with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour). and 
stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon C C request. 64B16-27.400(6),F.A.C.] 

37 Pharmacist's initials on controlled substance Pa refills. 
893.04(1X c)6,F.S.] Z C 

13 Sign designating the private patient consultation area 
(64B16-28.1035,F.A.C.] 

38 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 within 6 months from date 
prescription was signed. C 

14 Adequate written and vertat offer to counsel patients. ,F.A.C.] 39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 
for inspection. (893.07(lXa),F.S.J C 

15 Adequate patient counseling by pharmacist when offer is accepted. 
C] 40 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 693.07(2),F.S.] C (6481 6-27,820,F.A.C.J 

16 Pa dept. has sinldrunning water convenient to Pa dept. 41 Controlled substance Rx information in computer system Is retrievable. 
64B16-2S.102F.A.C.] (CFR 1306.22] (893.07.F.S] t64B16-28.140,F.A.C.]* C 

17 PrescrIption department has drug refrigeration storage. 
64B16-28.104.F,A,C,] 

42 Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. 
(CFR 1304.04 & 1306.22] 1893.07(4Xb),FS.] Z Cl 

16 PrescrIption depart'nent clean and safe. 64B16-28.I05,F.A.C.] 43 Schedule V dnjg records/sates property kept. Z i:t 
19 Pa balance and weights or electronic balance; counting bay or other z 44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as requited by section suitable counting device; assort-neat of graduates/spatulas/mortar and 

(64Bl6-28.l40(3Xc) OR (e),F.A.C.r pestles. (64B16-28.107(2Xa-d).F.A.C.] 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in Z C 45 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64016-27.210F.A.C.] C C a readily available electronic dala format (64Bl6-28.107(1), F.AC.] 

21 Medication property labeled 64B16-27.101,F.A.C.] 46 Compounding records properly maintained 64B16-28.140(4),F.A,C.] * C Z 
22 All Pa medication within the Pa department. (&4B16-28.120(1)F,A,C.] Z J 47 Unit dose records properly maintained 164816-27,410(1). F.A.C.J' C Z 
23 CCI Policy and Procedures and proqfi of quarterty meetings , o (protected UnderfTGG.10l,F.S.](64B16'27.300,FA.C.] - 

24 •outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock, 

* Questions with (') maybe answerS /a (not //cable). (64B16-2&l 10, 

25 olscard on Rxlabet. 164B16-28.402(txh),F.A.C.] C 
Remarks: #3 DEAexpires9-30-2011. #5NA. #7Tech ratioletter 11-10-2005. #23 LasICQI 10-9-2009, #39CS inventory 1-20-2009. #43 NA. #44 Printout. Ra drug purchases 

from McKesson-Lakeland and Medisca. 

I have read and have had this inspection report and he is and regulations concarrwd herein explained, aM do affirm that the infemtation given herein Is true and correct to /ia best of my knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, RPh 

12-22-2009 - 
ID ci2O 

Dale" '"" "'Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

STERILE PRODUCTS AND SPECIAL-PARENTERAL WWW.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

ENTERAL COMPOUNDING PHARMACY 

ROUTINE Ciwloc NEW CURRENTLY NOT CHANCE OWNER El 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1212212009 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL VITAL CARE;GULF MEDICAL PHA 

DEA NUMBER 
12771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Street 

TELEPHONE # I EXT. 
850-983-6705 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
MILTON SANTA ROSA 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
,Amanda Mcclure I Monday Tuesday Thursday I Friday I Saturday I Sunday 

Open 
I 

8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 
I 

8:30am 8:30am I oncall I oncail 2. Kelly Ward PTech 

Close 4:30pm 
I 

4:30pm 
p 

4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 3, Derek Luke PTech 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY /A YES NO 

I Current sterile products and special parenteral/enteralcompounding 
pharmacy permit displayed. (64B16-28.82. F.A.CJ z 19 Current chapter of Florida Statutes: 465 and 499 and 893, and Board Rules 

(64B16-28.820(Sge)1-4 P .A .0 1 El 
2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current As department manager. 

64B1 6-28.820(3)(a), F.A.C.J Z 20 Currentunited StatesPharmacopoeta & National Formulary or Remington 
Pharmaceutical Sciences or U.S. Dispensatory along with the latest 
suppiementals or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the El professional practice need of the pharmacy AND a current authoritative 
therapeutic reference. f64BI6-28,820(5)(e)5,F.A. 

3 Current DEA registration. 2ICFR 1301.111 ] .. El 
4 PharmacIst license/renewal certificate displayed. 16-27.l00(l),F.A.C.l Z El 

21 Current edition of the Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Sodety of 
Healtheystem 64616-28.820(5)(e)6,F.A.C.1 El 

5 Intems properly registered and supervised. (465.013,F.S.] 
64B16-26.400,F.A.C.] El 

22 Pharmaceutical stock examined at least every four months and 
deteriorated orouldated items removed. (64816-28.11,F.A.C) Z El 

6 Proper pharmacist technician ratio, If :1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 
Board of Pharmacy approval. 64B16-27.410,F.A.C.] 64B16-27,420,F.A.C.1 Z El 23 Medication property labeled. (64916-27.l0l.F.A.C.1 

7 Pharmacy technicians property ideqtified and supervised, 64B16-27.400,F.A.C.] Z El 
24 'Discard After date provided on prescription label. 

64B1628.402(lXh),F.A,C.I El 
25 Written offer to counsel. 64B16-27.820,F.A.C.] 7] 

8 Prescriptton area set apart for sterile prescriptions from general 
work/storage area/adequately air-conditioned or under positive pressure. El 64B16-28.820(5)(b)1,F.A.C.] 

26 Special handling/packi g/Iabelin9'delivery of prescriptions with telephone El accessibility to pharmacist at alt hours. 64B16-2B.820(3Xb).F.A.C.] 

9 Working sink convenient to the clean room. (64816-28.820(6Xc)3,F.A.C.] El 
27 Licensed pharmacist certifies accuracy of final preparation and documents 

in a manner that responsibility can be traced to the pharmacist. El 64B1 6-27 .400(2XcXd).F.A.C.) 

10 Refrigeration/freezer/sink/appropriate waste containers for used needles/ z t:i syringes. 6481 6-28.820(5)(c)2,4{a),F.A.C.] 
26 COt Policy and Procedures snd proof of quarterly meetings 

El El (protected under 1766.101,F.S] 64B16-27.300,F.A.C.]' 
11 Gloves/masks/gownstvanous standard sIzes of needles/syrtnges/ 

disinfectant cleaning dclean towels. 64B16-28.820(5)(d)1-4,F,A.C,] 
29 Prescriber's name/addresslDEA fi on all controlled substance prescription. 

F.S. 893.04(1)(o)2,F.A.C.1 El 
12 Bactirial hand-washing materials/vacuum containers and various transfer 

El sets, 'spill kits forcytotoxic agent spills. 64B16—28.820(5Xc)5.F.A.Ci 
30 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance prescriptions on 

prescription. 893.04(lXc)6,F.Sj Z El 
13 Appropriate waste containers for all cytotoxic waste Including apparel used z El in lptions. 64B16-28.820(5)(c)4b.F.A.C.] 

31 Controlled substance inventory taken on biennial basis and available br 
inspection. 893.07(1)(a),F.S.1 El 

14 Certified horizontal or vertical laminar airflow hood(s). (e),F.A.Ci Z El 32 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 693.07,F.S.] El 
15 Certified vertical laminar airflow hood used for cytotoxins. )' Z El El 

33 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. 
El z El {64Bt6-28.140(3)(c) or (e),F.A.C.]' 

16 Board approved policy and procedure manual available for inspection, Z El 64B1628.820(3Xd,F.AC.] 
34 Dispensing done pursuant to prescriptions with patient profiles maintained. 

(64Bl6-28.820(3)(c), F.A.C. Z El 
17 Separate manual/equipment/handing procedures and protection for 

personnel if cytotoxic agents are dispensed. {64B16-28.820(3)(e), F.A.C Z El 
35 Results of quality assurance program available for inspection. 

{64Bt6.28.820(3)(D), F.A.C El 
16 'Practice Guidelines For Personnel Dealing With Cytotoxic Drugs. 

F:A.C. ' - . J 'Questions with 'may be answered •rUa (not applicable). - - 

Remarks: See community inspection details. #12, #13. #15, & #18 NA - No cytotoxins prepared. #14 Hoods certified 10-29-2009. 

lovestigatorlSr. 
NV 354 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

File # 10801 

Insp# 88189 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

}TEALT 

I have read and have had titis inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the Information given herein is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, APh 

12-22-2009 
Date 

ID ci20 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flotida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201305745 

WILLIAM CLERO, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: WILLIAM CLERO 
6267 SW 8 STREET 
MIAMI, FL 33144 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

4'oard Executive 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 2454444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HELTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naben 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201305745 

WILLIAM CLERO, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: JUAN P. BROCHE 
75 VALENCIA STREET, SUITE 800 
FRANK QUINTERO, JR., P.A. 
CORAL GABLES, FL 331324 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/%oard Executive Direc or 
7/BOARD OF PHARMACY / Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 — 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of I-ICPR TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofl-fealth 

PHONE: 8501245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 





DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 

Section 456.072(1)(k). Florida Statutes (2009) by violating, Section 456.072(1)(a). Florida 
Statutes : 
From $1,500 fine and one (1) year probation to revocation. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: S1 I I LEMENT AGREEMENT 

This is a one count administrative complaint alleging Respondent made misleading, 

deceptive, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of pharmacy by entering 

pleas of nob contendere to 1 count of Grand Theft, a 
nd degree felony and 1 count of 

Organized Scheme to Defraud, a degree felony On 10/3/06. On 11/9/09, Respondent 

submitted an initial application to be licensed as an RPT to the Board of Pharmacy and denied 

he entered any pleas or was convicted of any crimes more serious than minor traffic violations 

on his application. 

Terms of Settlement : 
• Appearance 
• Fine of $2,000.00 
• Reimbursement of Costs not to exceed $2,273.38 
• Probation for 2 years 



11/06/2013 15:33 FAX moron pharmacy 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PtTtiLONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-i 15745 

IAN CLERO, 

RESPONDENT. 

_I 
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, atl3ched as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this 'matter, WILLIAN a.ERO, RSP.T., 

was a registered pharmacy technidan in the state of Hod Ia, having been 

issued license number RPT 11309. 

2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and ProPt served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Floriàa Statutes. 
DON v. WWIan Oem, LP.T. 
case 2.01305745 



11/06/2013 15:33 FAX moron phanacy ©0003/001O 

• STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to It provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the n ;dithon of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Compiaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to disdpline by the Board of Phar nacy. 

PROPOSED ITION 
1. - Respondent shall be when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning thi's case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Boar! of Pharmacy shall impose r administrative 

fine of 'IWO ThOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($2,000.00). The 

fine shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin :C76, Post Offh s Box 6320, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within one year fror i the date the 

Final Order approving and incorporating this Settlement Ag eement (Final 

Order) Is flied with the Department Clerk. 

DOH v. Willian Ceo, R.P.T. 
201305745 

2 



11/06/2013 15:34 FAX moron pharmacy 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation aru prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUS ND DOLLARS 

TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY ThREE DOLLARS AND T YENTY-THREE 

CENTS ($2,273.28). Total costs shall be assessed whei the Settlement 

Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 32314- 

6320, within 180 days fbm the date the Final Order filed with the 

Department Clerk. 

4. - Respondents license as a Regis ered Pharmacy 

Technician shall be placed on probation. for two years. Dud g the period of 

probation, Respondent shall be subject to the fbllowjng terms and 

conditions: 

a. If Respondent works for a placement agency, shall 

provide to the Department's Compliance Officer the address and 

telephone number of the agency. If Respondent woks as a relief 

Registered Pharmacy Tethnician, Respondent may not war!. at or for more 

than two pharmades during the probationary period, unless Respondent 

DOH v. Wifllan Gao, LP.T. 
case c: 2013-05745 

3 



11/06/2013 15:34 FAX moron pharmacy 

obtains prior approval from the Board. Respondent's rep 

macies, including addresses and dates that Respon 

each pharmacy, and the name of the supervising or prhr 

reports shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer 

months in a manner as directed by the Compliance Officer. 

b. Respondent shall submit documentation evid 

employer, or if employed as a relief Registered Pharmacy 

supervising pharmacist(s) and the relief agency, have, been 

copy of the Final Order describing these probationary terrn5 

days of the entryof the Anal Order orupon initiation of ernj 

c. Respondent shall ensure that his employer or, if 

relief Registered Pharmacy Technician, the supervising pha 

pharmacy at which Respondent works, submits written 

ComplianceOfficer for the Board of Pharmacy. These repor 

the name, current address, license number, and telephone t 

pharmacy intern, pharmacy technician, relief pharmacist, a 

department manager working with the Respondent in t 
department; a brief description of Respondent's duties and 

and Respondent's work schedule. These reports shall be su 

UGH v. Oem, R.P.T. 
2013-05745 

)tt shalt list the 

lent worked at 

ary pharmacist. 

every three (3) 

that his 

Technician, his 

provided witha 

within ten (10) 

iloyrnent. 

employed as a 

madst at each 

reports the 

s shall contain: 

iurnber of each 

id 

ie prescription 

lities; 
bmltted by the 

4 



11/06/2013 15:34 FAX moron pharmacy 

employer to the Compliance Officer every three (3) mon It in a manner 

directed by the Department Compliance Officer. 

d. During the period of Respondents probation, tie Department 

shall conduct semi-annual audits of five (5) randomly sel controlled 

substances at the Respondent's place of employment at Rerpondent's cost. 

e... Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance I efore the Board 

of Pharmacy during his last three (3) months of probation. The Board 

retains the right to extend Respondent's term of probatic i or to ifflpose 

additional restrictions, conditions or limitations on RespondE Wslicense. 

5. Future - Respondent shall not ! Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federaFlaw, rule, or regulation relatinc to the practice 

or to:the ability to practice pharmacy. 

5. Violation of - It is expressly understood a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as kpproved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Statutes. 

DOlly. W4JJan R.P.T. 
No.: 2013-05745 

5 



11/06/2013 15:34 FAX moron pharmacy 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It Is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to 3pproval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorpora es the tErms of 

this Settlement Agreement Into its Anal Order. 

8. Purpose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding furthir administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this rega d, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigati c tile materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement Petitioner and Respondent tee to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. FurtEjerrnore. should 

this: Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration ofthis Settlement Agreekient and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further partldpation consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

y. Oat, a. P.T. 
No.2 201305745 

- S 



11/06/2013 15:34 FAX moron pharmacy 

'9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreem as approved 

and incorporated Into the Final Order will not pre Jude additional 

by the Board or Department against Respor Jent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth In the Administrative Ca nplaint. 

10. Waiver of Attomefs Fees and - Re :pondent waives 

the tight to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

11. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent valves all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and furth review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board & Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and Shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or Itractice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in rLoiution of this 

matter. 

00Kv. WUIW% 0ev, R.P.T. 

7 



11/06/2013 15.: 34 FAX moron pharmacy 

SiGNED this day of JiOryil 2013. 

cuit MGDXIA 
p. 

August 15 
asSed it 

a 
WffIian Clero, R.P.T. 

STATE OF__________ 

COUNflY ifl 
Before me personally appeared 
known to me or by 

and. who, 

WilHan Clero, R..P.T., w 

appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

under oath, acknowledges thE: his 

iose Identity Is 
(type of 
signature 

0 dayof liote 2013. 

MY Comnt . -i Expires: 

DCNI.v. WWlan Gao, tat 
Case No.: 2013-05745 

8 



11/0612013 15:34 FAX moron pharmacy 

APPROVED this day of________________ , 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, M S 
Surgeon General & Secretar 
Florida Department of Healti 

- 
Mary Mill&ñ 
Assistant General Cpunsel 
Florida Department of HealU 
Florida Bar Number 0780420 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, florida 265 
Telephone: 850-245--44t14, c ct. 8104 
Fax: .850-245-4683 
E-Mail.: ate.fLus 

OCH v. Wiflian R.PX. .: 2613-05745 
9 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE NO. 2013-05745 

WILLIAN CLERO, R.P.T., 

RESPONDENT. 

_I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by md through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Willian Clero, ,T., and in 

sUppbrt thereof allege.s: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a registered pharmacy technician (R.P.T.) within the state 

of Florida, having been issued license number RPT 33144. 

EXHIBIT 



Departhient of Hea'th v. Willian R.PJ. 
Case No. 2013-05745 

3. Respondent's address of record is 6267 Southwest th Street, 

Miami, Florida 33144. 

4. On or about February 7, 2005, in Miami-Dade County, Miami- 

Dade police officers arrested Respondent on five counts of Grand Theft, a 

third degree felony, in violation of Section 812.014, Florida Statutes (2003 

— 2004); and five counts of Uttering a Forged Instrument, a felony in 

violation of Section 831.02, Florida Statutes (2003 — 2004). 

5. On or about October 3, 2006, in the Circuit Court of the 

Eleventh Judicial Circuit, in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida, in case no. 

FO5-004126, Respondent entered pleas of nob contendére to one count of 

Grand Theft, a second degree felony, in violation of Ion 812.014(2), 

Florida Statutes (2003 2004); and one count of Organized Scheme to 

Defraud, a first degree felony, in violation of Section 817.034(4), Florida 

Statutes (2003 — 2004). 

6. On or about November 9, 2009, Respondent . an 

application to be licensed as an R.P.T. to the Board of Pharmacy. 

7. On or about November 9, 2009, respondent denied he entered 

any pleas or was convicted of any crimes more serious than minor traffic 

violations on his initial application for licensure as an R.P.T. to the Board. 

initial 

2 



8. On or about November 20, 2009, the Board approved 

Respondent's initial application for licensure as an R.P.T. 

9. Section 456.072(1)(a), Florida Statutes (2009), provides that 

making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent representations in or related to 

the practice of the licensee's profession constitutes grounds for discipline. 

10. Respondent made misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent 

representations in or related to the practice of the Respondent's profession 

by submitting an initial application to the Board of Pharmacy to practice as 

an R.P.T. and representing he had not entered any pleas or been convicted 

of any crimes more serious than minor traffic violations. 

11. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated• Section 

456.072(1)(a), Florida Statutes (2009), by making misleading, deceptive, 

or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of the license&s 

profession. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of-a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

Depaitnerttof Health V. Witilan Cero, R.P.T. 
3 Case No. 2013-OS74S 



fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this Rt* day of , 2013. 

JOHN N. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
- State Surgeon General and 

Secretary of Health 

• Assistant General Counsel 
DON Prosecution Services Unit 

FILED 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
DEPARTMENT 

LERK Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 TY C 

anters Fla. Bar No. 0780420 
CLERK 

. (850) 245-4111 phone, ext. 8104 
(850) 245-'4683 fax. 
E-mail: Mary :MiIlèr2©doh.state.fLug 

PCP: 

PCP Mèt'nbdr's: 

of Health v. Wit liar, , R.P.T. 4 
Case No. 2013-05745 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the light to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf Ifa hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Deparfrnent of Health v. Wifuan aero, R.P.T. 
5 Case No. 2013-05745 



Time Tracking System Page 1 of 1 

1 

L 1 I CornplaintlCase Number: 201305745 MAIN HELP 

Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201305745 

Subject's Name: CLERO, WILLIAM 
***** Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

Complaint: 2.70] 1 
investigation: 1 1 
Legal: 

I 
1 

Compliance: 

I 
I 

I 

to Date: 1 

OTIMETRAK/TIMEMASTER.ASP 11/27/2013 



Rick Scott Mission: I 
I Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
I - .. - I 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
I I John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. . I 

H EIALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

December 12, 2013 

Juan P. Broche, Esquire 
75 Valencia St #800 
Coral Gables, FL 33124 

Re: DOH vs. William Clero, R.P.T. 
DOH Case Number: 2013-05745 

Dear Mr. Broche: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by your client on November 6, 2013, 
concerning the above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Board and you will be notified of the date and time 
approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

Mary S. 
Assistant General Counsel 

MM/ab 

William Clero, RPT 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel Prosecution Services Unit 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 
FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 
YOUTUBE: fidoh PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Additional Information Required 
Work Experience Form 

DivIsion of 
Medical Quality Assurance 

MQA 
Name: Mr. W1LLIAN CLERO 
Profession: 22 
Transaction Code: I 
File Number: 256 

lfyouremployer is submitting-proof-of-your—I 500-hours of-work experience-directly to the BoarthotEhanmacy you 

do not need to submit this form. Please verify with your employer before submitting. 

PHARMACY TECHNICIAN REGISTRATION WORK EXPERIENCE FORM 

Applicant Name 

11Z14/A CL6RO 
National Certification Number 
(if applicable) 

Phone Number 
t/C/c// 

Street Address 

t2-67 S" St 
City State I Zip 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR WORK EXPERIENCE AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF: 

2. Pharmacy Information 
Pharmacist's Name 

-f ERCADo ouffib/J A-f 
License Number S gg356 

-PhannacyNamr — 
f-foJ?c&i çP" DJSccu ,ciY 
Street Address I City 

S&LS St HXMMI 
is 
State IZip 

I 

Phone Number 3. Dates of Experience 
6 - IFrom: To: 

4. Average number of hours worked per week 15. Total hours of work experience 

I 

a correct state e of fact/The above information was taken from the records of the above named 
ph a nd is available f r spectioti b4he Board of Pharmacy. 

/IA 
S e&Tsing Signature Date 
-- 

Current Date: 7/7/10 

1. Biographical Information 

Please mail this form to: '—' Board of 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 

JUL 1 2 2010 

macy 



Additional Information Required 
Work Experience Form 

If your employer is submitting proof of your 1500 hours of work experience directly to the Board of Pharmacy you 
do not need to submit this form. Please verify with your employer before submitting. 

PHARMACY TECHNICIAN REGISTRATION WORK EXPERIENCE FORM 

1. Biographical Information 
. Applicant Name 

z4A) ctERO 
National certification Number 
(iIappiicabie) 

Phone Number 

Street Address 
6367 5cc St 

City State Zip 
Ft 331'/'/ 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR WORK EXPERIENCE AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF: 

2. Pharmacy Information 
Pha acisi's Name 

d,o&rM S*kieH& 
License Number 
'Ps 

Pharmacy Name I Permit Number 

Street Address City 
5W St 

State p - 
Phone Number 3. Dates of Experience 

aba- ) From: To: 
4. Average number of hours worked per week 5. Total hours of work experience 

4D 

Current Date: /5/10 

1* 

Name: 
Profession: 
Transaction Code: 

File Number 

Mr. JLLIAN CLERO 
2208 
1020 
16256 

Division of 
Medicel Quafily Assurance 

M04 
M36 1 6 zO'tO 

pparmfl 1 

Applicants Signature Date 

is a correct statement The above information was taken from the records of the above named 
land is available for insoè&ion bv4he Board of Pharmacy. 

Please mail this form to: 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: William Clero, R.P.T. (MSM) 
Case Number: 2013-05741( 

MEMBERS: Sichele Weizer, PharmD and Gavin Meshad 

DATE OF PCP: 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-i 1*.*flS*S ..slus..s....a....,o,.n..s.u.u.u.... 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 456.072(1)(a), Florida Statutes (2009); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

Jr&/iw, 11/3 
qhair, Probable Ca4e Panel Date 
Board of Phannacy 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Miami I Date of Case: 06/30/2012 Case Number: RPT 2013-05745 

Subject: 
MR. WILLIAM CLERO 
6267 Sw th Street 
Miami, FL 33144 
(305) 262-0225 (H) 

Source: 
DOH/INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES/MIAMI 

. 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2208 11309 Registered Pharmacy 05/20/13 

Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 05/17/13 — 05/20/13 Type of Report: Supplemental - 1 

Alleged Violation: SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: This Supplemental Report is predicated upon receipt of Supplemental request from 
CASSANDRA NICHOLOSON Assistant for General Counselor, MARY MILLER, ESQ from the Department 
of Health Prosecution Services Unit requesting the following information: To obtain a copy of WILLIAM 
CLERO's arrest and booking records. 

On 05/20/13, this Investigator successfully obtained arrest and booking records from the Miami-Dade Clerk 
of Courts as well as from the Miami Dade Police Department. 

Exhibit(s): 
SI — Arrest Records (pp. 2-4) 
82— Booking Records (pp. 5-127) 

Related Case(s): 2011-18457, 201 1-18460, & 2012-12853 

II 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 
CONSUMER SERVICES 4/9/13 201305745 

Subject: 
WILLIAM CLEW 
6267 SW 8 St 
Miami, FL 33144 
(305) 262-0225 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
Consumer Services 

. 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RFT 11309 Registered Pharmacy Pharmacy 5/8/13 

Technician 

Period of Investigation: Type of Report: 
5/2/13-5/8/13 FINAL 

Alleged Violation: § 456.072(1)(c)(dd); 465.016(1)(f))(r); Violate statute; Having been convicted or found guilty in 
a court of this state or other jurisdiction, of a crime which directly relates to the ability to practice of pharmacy : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of information from the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
alleging on 10/3/06 CLERO was convicted of Grand theft 812.014(2)(B)1 and Organized Fraud ] 
in Miami-Dade County, Florida. Adjudication of Guilt Withheld. Court Documents attached. (EXHI BIT #1) 

CLERO was notified of this complaint by letter, dated 5/2/13. The notification was sent to the address of record 
Forwarded with this letter were copies of the UCF and the initiating documents. (EXHIBIT #2) 

DOH licensure information was obtained on 5/8/13. It reflected CLERO's license is in a Clear/Active Status. 

No patient(s) was/were identified, thus patient notification was not required. 

CLERO does not appear to be represented at this time. 

CLERO has not responded as of the date of this report, if he does it will be forwarded to . 
Related Case: 

Investigator/Date: 

Leo Paulson (HA1O7) 5/8/13 

roy d By/Da 

09 2013 
Shane Walters, OMC Manager 

Distribution: Prosecution Services Unit/Consumer Services Unit Page 1 

r) 

ig 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER 201305745 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records 3 

Interview/Statement of COMPLAINANT 3 

III. EXHIBITS 

1) Uniform Complaint Form, Initiating Documents & Court Documents 4-84 

2) 's Notification Letter 85 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER 201305745 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

There were no authorizations, medical records, or Verification of Completeness of Record forms 
at issue in this matter. 

Exhibit #1 contains the following: 

Court documents from Miami-Dade County showing pn 10/3/06 CLERO was convicted of Grand 
theft 812.014(2)(B)] and Organized Fraud 817.034(4)(A)1] in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
Adjudication of Guilt Withheld. 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH -Source 

On 4/9/13 investigator PAULSON received information from the Department of Health alleging 
on 10/3/06 CLERO was convicted of Grand theft L812.014(2)(BYI and Organized Fraud 
{817.034(4)(A)1] in Miami-Dade County, Florida. Adjudication of Guilt Withheld. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: - 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

_______________ 

of in florida through hite9rated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in The Naflon , 2013 

CONFIDENTIAL 
Mr. Will ian Clero, R.Ph.T. 
6267 South West 8 Street 
Miami, FL 33144 

Complaint #: 201305745 

Dear Mr. Clero: 

The Consumer Services Unit has received the enclosed complaint against you. We reviewed the 
complaint or report and determined that the Florida Pharmacy Act may have been violated. Therefore, 
we have opened an investigation into this matter. Please submit a written response to this complaint 
within 20 days of receipt of this letter. 

You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file. This complaint and all investigative 
information will remain confidential until 10 days after the probable cause panel has determined that a 
violation has occurred or you give up the right to confidentiality. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in 
Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. If you have any questions, please call 
the Consumer Services Unit at (850) 245-4339, In addition, if you have any concerns or suggestions 
about our complaint' process, please fill out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions form at 
www.floridashealth.com/mga/survey. . 

Sincerely, 

Leo W, Paulson 
Government Analyst I 

lp/kd 
Enclosure 

P 0 
Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHeaith.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of Enforcement IR:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald cypress Way, Bin C-75 . Tallahassee, FL 32399-3275 REPORT FACE800K:FLbepartnentofHeaith 
PHONE: (850) 245-4339 'FAX: (850) 488-0796 YOUTUBE fldoh 

EXJ-1!BIT# 1- 

PAGE# 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201309121 

MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTI CE 

TO: MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA 
2227 KENT PLACE 
CLEARWATER, FL 33764 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 am and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/ 

oard Executive Director I 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 . FAX : (850) 245-4791 VOUTUBE: tldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Fledda through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FAGS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201309121 

MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: RICHARD SEBEK 
501 EAST KENNEDY BLVD SUITE 1500 
TAMPA, FL 33602 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

bee ent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive 
OF PHARMACY 

V Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWIUER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartnientofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 VOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

_______________ 

of all people in Flonda through integrated John H Armstrong, MD, FAGS 
state, county & community efforts. 

State General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201309121 

MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: CATHLEEN E ODOWD 
101 EAST KENNEDY BLVD 
SUITE 2800 BANK OF AMERICA PLAZA 
BANK OF AMERICA PLAZA 
TAMPA, FL 33602 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

7/Board Executive Direc or 

7/ BOARDOFPHARMACY 
Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance Bureau of HCPR TWITFER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: 8501245-4292 • FAX 8501413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Governor Mission: 

I 
I 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
I 

I 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

l 
H EALTH I Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

TO: 

MEMORANDUM 
of Pharmacy Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board 

FROM: Shaffer Claridge, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph 

DOH Case Number 2013-0912 1 

DATE: December 10, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for final 
agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following information is 

provided in this regard. 

Subject: Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph 

Subjects Address of Record: 2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, FL 33764 
727-524-6827 Telephone 

Enforcement Address: 2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, FL 33764 

Subject's License No: 47410 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 39254 

Initial Licensure Date: 4/6/2011 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): COUNT I: Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes 
(2012-2013) 

COUNT II: Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes 
(2012-2013) 

COUNT III: Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes 
(2012-2013) by violating Section 456.072(1)(b), 
Florida Statutes (2012-2013) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: September 23, 2013 
Jeffrey J. Mesaros, PharmD and Lorena Risch 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit hyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 8501245-4444• FAX 850/245-4662 



Department of Health vs. Magdi M. Bishara, R.Ph 
DOH Case number 2013-09121 
Page Two 

Subject's Attorney: Cathleen E. O'Dowd, Esquire 
101 East Kennedy 1 Suite 2800 
Bank Of America Plaza 
Tampa, FL 33602 
813-229-7600 Telephone 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health/Consumer Services Unit 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Settlement Agreement 
Administrative Complaint 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 7/8/13 with 

Exhibits S4 1 - 3 

Supplemental Investigative Report dated 7/2/13 with 
Exhibits S3 — 1-3 

Supplemental Investigative Report dated 7/2/13 with 
Exhibits S2-1 

Supplemental Investigative Report dated 6/24/13 with 
Exhibits Si-i 

Final Investigative Report dated 6/14/13 with Exhibits 
1-9 

Additional Information from Investigations 
Mental and Physical Evaluation 
CV of Evaluator 
CV of Respondent 
Election of Rights Form 
Memorandum of Finding Probable Cause 
Order OF Emergency Restriction Of License 
Cost Summary Report 

DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES: 

Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes : $250 fine, indefinite suspension 
with PRN review and board appearance 

Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes : $2250 fine and complete approved 
CE course in the prevention of medication errors ot no less than eight (8) hours 

Section 465.016(11(r), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), by violating Section , Florida Statutes : $1,500 tine and one year probation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: 

The Department filed an Administrative Complaint against Respondent on September 25, 2013. 
On October 3, 2013, Respondent accepted service of the Administrative ComjMaint, along with an 
Explanation of rights, an Election of Rights, and a Settlement Agreement. On or about October 
23, 2013, Respondent returned his executed Election of Rights to the 



Department of Health vs. Magdi M. Bishara, R.Ph 

DOH Case number 2013-09121 
Page Three 

Department. On or about November 22, 2013, Respondent executed the Settlement Agreement 

and returned it to the Department. The Department's prosecutor has executed the Settlement 

Agreement and submitted it for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy. 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT TERMS: 

• $1,000 fine 
• Costs to be capped at $3,554.40 
• Laws and Rules Course 
• Evaluation by Department/PRN approved evaluator and compliance with all 

recommendations 
• One year probation 

CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT: 

1. Respondent has no history of discipline during his licensure term. 
2. No patients were harmed by Respondent's actions as they involved dispensing 

medications to himself. 
3. Respondent has been unable to practice pharmacy since the issuance of a restriction order 

on September 5, 2013. 
4. Respondent has contacted PRN to begin the process of participation with the program. 

SC/bp 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

bEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-09121 

MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

I 

Sti iLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Magdi Mikhail Bishara was a 

pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued, license number PS 

47410. Respondent's mailing address of record is 2227 Kent Place, 

Clearwater, Florida 33764. 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject: to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). The fine shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314- 

2 



6320, within ninety (90) days from the date the Final Order approving 

and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is filed with the 

Department Clerk. 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter. The Department and Respondent agree that the amount of 

Department costs to be paid in this case shall be capped at 

The costs shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within ninety (90) days from the 

date the Final Order is filed with the Department Clerk. 

4. CONTINUING - Respondent shall successfully 

complete a Continuing Education Course on the subject of LAWS AND 

RULES consisting of 12 hours of credit, which has approved by the Florida 

Board of Pharmacy, within ONE (1) YEAR of the filing of a Final Order 

accepting and incorporating this Settlement Agreement. These continuing 

education hours shall be in addition to the hours required for license 

renewal. Within ten (10) days of completion of the course and/or receipt 

of the certificate of completion, Respondent shall mail a copy of the 

3 



continuing education certificate of completion to the Pharmacy Compliance 

Officer at the address listed in paragraph two (2) above. 

5. - Respondent shall contact the Professional 

Resource Network (PRN) shall undergo an evaluation by a DepartmenvPRN 

approved evaluator and follow all requirements and recommendations. 

6. - Respondent's Florida pharmacist license shall be 

placed on probation for one year for a period concurrent with his PRN 

contract if any. During the period of probation Respondent must follow all 

PRN recommendations and requirements, if any. During the period of 

probation, Respondent shall be subject to the following terms and 

conditions: 

a. If Respondent works for a placement agency, Respondent shall 

provide to the Department's Compliance Officer the name, address and 

telephone number of the agency. If Respondent works as a relief 

pharmacist, Respondent may not work at or for more than two pharmacies 

during the probationary period, unless Respondent obtains prior approval 

from the Board. Respondent's report shall list the pharmacies, including 

addresses and dates that Respondent worked at each pharmacy, and the 

name of the supervising or primary pharmacist. These reports shall be 

4 



submitted to the Compliance Officer every three (3) months in a manner as 

directed by the Compliance Officer. 

b. Respondent shall submit documentation evidencing that her 

employer, or if employed as a relief pharmacist, her supervising 

pharmacist(s) and the relief agency, have been provided with a copy of the 

Final Order describing these probationary terms within ten (10) days of the 

entry of the Final Order or upon initiation of employment. 

c. Respondent shall ensure that her employer or, if employed as a 

relief pharmacist, the supervising pharmacist at each pharmacy at which 

Respondent works, submits written reports to the Compliance Officer for 

the Board of Pharmacy. These reports shall contain: the name, current 

address, license number, and telephone number of each pharmacy intern, 

pharmacy technician, relief pharmacist, and prescription department 

manager working with the Respondent in the prescription department; a 

brief description of Respondent's duties and responsibilities; and 

Respondent's work schedule. These reports shall be submitted by the 

employer to the Compliance Officer every three (3) months in a manner 

directed by the Department Compliance Officer. 

5 



d. During the period of Respondent's probation, the Department 

shall conduct semi-annual audits of five (5) randomly selected controlled 

substances at the Respondent's place of employment at Respondent's cost. 

e. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before the Board 

of Pharmacy during her last three (3) months of probation. The Board 

retains the right to extend Respondent's term of probation or to impose 

additional restrictions, conditions or limitations on Respondent's license. 

7. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

8. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

9. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

a 



Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

10. Purpose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

11. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

7 



proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not spedfically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

12. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

13. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

14. Current - Respondent shall keep current its mailing 

address and its practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

S 



SIGNED this day of 

STATE OF 

Before me personally appeared Magdi 
identity is known to me or by . 
identification), and who under oath, 
appears above. 
Sworn to and 

APPROVED this iOtday of , 2013. 

John H. 
Armstrong, MD, FACS, FCCP 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 
of Health, State of Florida 

W. 

Assistant General Counsel 

9 

2013 I 

CASE NO. 2013-09121 
R. PH. 

COLJNTYOF I 
Mikhail Bishara R. 

MiRRAk. PASIARA 
acknowledges that his 

Ph. whose 
(type of 

signature 

subscribed by Respondent before me this day of 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: '$IO**y q* 15. 

Noisy Pitöc. Stated Rodda 
COITISSb* EE 53982 

ei*ee 082016 



Counsel for Petitioner 
R. Shaffer Claridge 
Florida Bar No. 0095549 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: 850.245.4444 
Fax: 850.245.4662 

10 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

CASE NUMBER 2013-09121 
MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R.PH., 

Respondent. 
I VE COM PLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health ("Departn,erjfl, by and through 

undersigned counsel, fifes this Administrative Complaint against the 

Respondent, MAGDI MIKHAJL BISHARA, R.PH. ("Respondent"), and states: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency charged 

with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 456, and 

465, Florida Statutes (2012-2013). 

2. At all times material to this Order, Respondent was a licensed 

pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued Ficense number PS 

47410, and was employed by the Waigreens Pharmacy lgreens") doing 

business at 1801 Gulf to Bay Boulevaiti, Clearwater, Florida 33765. 

3. On or about May 7, 2013, a co-worker observed Respondent at the 



filling station at lgreens filling a prescription for phendimetrazjne 35mg. 

While speaking with Respondent, the co-worker discovered that Respondent 

was filling his own prescription. Respondent deleted the prescription and gave 

the medication to the co-worker. 

4. Phendimetrazine is a stimulant drug commonly used as an appetite 

suppressant. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), 

phendimetrazine is a Schedule controlled substance that has a potential for 
abuse less than the substances in Schedules I and U and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of the substance 

may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological 

dependence. 

5. On or about May 8, 2013, Respondent was questioned by the 

Waigreens Loss Prevention Officer and officers from the Clearwater Police 

Department. Respondent admitted to forging the prescription for 
phendimetrazjne. Respondent also admitted that he previously forged a 

prescription for 180 dosage units of phendimetrazu,e 35mg, which he filled on 

AprU 1, 2013. 

6. Respondent further admitted to forging and filling three 

prescriptions for 12 dosage units each of hydrocodone, which he filled on June l V. Magdi Mikhail Bãthara, R.Ph. 
2 l Case Ntm,ber 



13, 2012; July 15, 2012; and August 22, 2012. 

7. Hydrocodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), hydrocodone is a Schedule H 

controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. 

Abuse of hydrocodone. may lead to severe psychological or physical 

dependence. 

8. On or about July 25, 2013, a Department-approved evaluator, 

examined Respondent. Dr. Bishara admitted using the diverted 

phendimetrazine and hydrocodone. Dr. Bishara explained that he would fill 

orders for the diverted medications as if a physician had called the order into 

the pharmacy. The evaluator diagnosed Respondent with phendimetrazine and 

opicid abuse, and concluded that Respondent is not currently able to safely 

practice pharmacy. 

COUNT ONE 

9. Petitioner realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs one 

(1) through eight (8) as if fully set forth herein. 

10. Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline for bJeing unable to practice pharmacy with 

OCH v. Magdi Mikhafl &tiara, R.Ph, 3 
OCH Case Number 2013-0912i 



reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, 

chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical 

ion." 
11. The Department's evaluator determined that Respondent is unable 

to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of use of drugs 

or narcotics. 

12. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(m) 

by being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skiD and safety by 

reason of use of drugs or narcotics. 

COUNT TWO 

13. Petitioner realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs one 

(1) through eight (8) as If fully set forth herein. 

14. Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline for c]ompounding, dispensing, or distributing a 

legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the 

professional practice of pharmacy." 

15. Respondent dispensed controlled substances other than in the 

course of the professional practice of pharmacy by dispensing to himself 

dosage units of phendimetrazine and hydrocodone. 

DON V. Magdi Mikilafi Bishara, R.Pti. 4 
DOll Case Number 2013-09121 



16. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 465.016(1)(i), 

Florida Statutes (2012-2013), by dispensing controlled substances to himself for 

reasons outside of the course of the professional practice of pharmacy. 

COUNT THREE 

17. Petitioner realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs one 

(1) through eight (8) as if fully set forth herein. 

18. Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline for v)iolating any provision of this chapter or chapter 

456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto." 

19. Section 456.072(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline for m]aking misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent 

representations in or related to the practice of the licensee's profession." 

20. Respondent made misleading or fraudulent representations in the 

course of his practice of pharmacy when he obtained medication by acting as if 

a doctor had called in an order prescribing the medication. 

21. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 465.0l6(1)(r), 

Florida Statutes (2012-2013), by violating Section 456.072(1)(b), Florida 

Statutes (2012-2013), by making misleading or fraudulent representations in 

the practice of pharmacy. 

DON V. Magdi MIkhaiI Bishara, R.P*-I. 5 
DON Case Number 2013-09121 



WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the Board of 

Pharmacy deems appropriate. 

s LL SIGNED this 3 day of " 2013. 

John N. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

FILED R. Shaffer CIa ridge, Esq. 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh Florida Bar No. 0095549 

CLERK CLERK Assistant General Counsel 
DATE SEP 2 

tIters 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245-4444, extension 8166 
(F) 850-245-4662 
(E)shaffer clarjdge@doh.state.fl.us 

PCP Date: September 23, 2013. 
PCP Members: Dr. Mesaros & Ms. Risch. 

OCH v. Magdi Mi}diait Bistiari, R.Ph. 
6 DOH Case Number 2013-09121 





a 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: St Petersburg Date of Case: 06/10/2013 Case Number: 201 3-09121 

Subject: MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R. Ph Source: Self Report 

2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
Tel: (727) 524-6827 

Prefix: PS License #47410 ssbop Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Pharmacist 09/09/2013 

Period of Investigation: Type of Report: Supplement 4 

09/05/2013 — 09/09/2013 

Alleged Violation: Possible violation of ss. 456.072(1)(k)(z) dd) and 465.01 6(1)(d)(2)(m)(r) F.S. Impaired 

from alcohol/drugs/other; Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal . 
Synopsis: 

This supplemental report is predicated upon receipt of request from PSU to hand serve BISHARA It 54- 

1) the attached ERO. (Exh. S4-2). 

Service was made via email and U.S. postal service to Attorney RICHARD SEBEK of Banker, Lopez, 

GassIer, P.A., 501 East Kennedy Blvd., Suite 1500, Tampa, Florida 33602 on behalf of BISHARA. 

An Affidavit of Service and email confirmation from Attorney SEBEK is Exh S4-3. '-a 

C,) 
p 

PSU was notified via email on 9/9/13. 

— :r> 

Related Case(s): none 

_______________________________________________ 

Investigator/Date: 

/ / 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

SEP 1 J 13 
w FORN 300, created 37/02 

Marlene Toledo, MQAI (P1-47) 



Rick Scott 
Governor 

Mission: 
To prOtect promote & improve the health 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

FROM: Tamia Christopher For TO: Karen l, Invest. Supervisor 

Shaffer Claridge, Esquire ISU: St Petersburg 

Date: 13 TO: CSU 

Phone #: 850/245/4444 Ext. 8200 CC: 

Case Number: 2013-09121 Board: Pharmacy 

SubjectMagdiMikhailBithfl R.Ph HL Code: HLL I 0 IA Status: 90 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Process Servicet (Activity Code 160) 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 2 
Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code ISO) t 

Details: For Hand Service of ERO n 
Last Known Address: 2227 Kent Place, Clearwater, Florida 33764 'if 

Last Known Name & Phone Number: Magdi Mikhail Bishara, (727) 524-5827 

Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 

Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES If Yes, When? 

Wasthis case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being 

sent? YES No fl NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 

YES.please send a copy of the original jnvestigative 

RESPONSE: 

Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed 

(Activity Code 162) 

Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 

Email 

____ 

TaUahasse Alachu SL lamp Oriand t 

_____ 

to. a Pete a ?aim 
rami la 

__________________________ 

Consume 

r Services kJIS 

______________________________ 

Florida Department of Health k 
www.FioridssHealth.com 

Division of Prosecution Services Unit 
TWFrrER:HealthyFL.A 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-55' Tallahassee, FL 
lentOt Health 

PHONE: 850-245-4444 'FAX 850-245-4662 
YOUTUBE fldoh 

— 7 J / 



at Order No. 13.1793-EflQ%IQA 

FILLI) DAIESEP 0 5 2013 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Clerk 

In Re: The Emergency Restriction of the License of 
.Magdi Mikhafl Bishara, R.Ph. 

License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY RESTRICTION OF UCENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary of 

Health, ORDERS the Emergency Restriction of the License of Magdi Mikhail 

Bishara, R. Ph. ("Mr. Bishara"), to practice as a pharmacist in the State of 

Florida. Mr. Bishara holds license number PS 47410. His address of record is 

2227 Kent Place, Clearwater, Florida 33764. The following Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law support the emergency restriction of Mr. Bishara's license to 

practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 456, 

and 465, Florida Statutes (2012-2013). Section 456.073(8), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013), empowers the State Surgeon General to summarily restrict Mr. 

Bishara's license to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida in 

accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012-2013). 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Bishara was a licensed 



In Re: The Emergency Resthctton of the License Of 

Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph. 

License Numbu P5 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued license number PS 

47410, and was employed by the Waigreens Pharmacy ("Waigreens") doing 

business at 1801 Gulf to Bay Boulevard, Clearwater, Florida 33765. 

3. On or about May 7, 2013, a co-worker observed Mr. Bishara at the 

filling station at Walgreens filling a prescription for phendimetrazine 35mg. 

While speaking with Mr. Bishara, the co-worker discovered that Mr. Bishara was 

filling his own prescription in violation of Walgreens' policy. Mr. Bishara deleted 

the prescription and gave the medication to the co-worker. Upon further 

inspection, the co-worker noticed that the prescription was for 180 dosage 

units, while the bottle which Mr. Bishara filled contained 200 dosage units. 

4. Phendimetrazine is a stimulant drug commonly used as an appetite 

suppressant. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), 

phendimetrazine is a Schedule III controlled substance that has a potential for 

abuse less than the substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of the substance 

may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological 

dependence: 

5. On or about May 8, 2013, Mr. Bishara was questioned by the 

Walgreens Loss Prevention Officer and officers from the Clearwater Police 

2 



In Re: The Emergency Restriction of the Ucense Of 
Magdi MiIthail Bishara, R.PtI. 

License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

Department. Mr. Bishara admitted to forging the prescription for 

phendimetrazine. Mr. Bishara also admitted that he previously forged a 

prescription for 180 dosage units of phendimetrazine 35mg, which he filled on 

April 1, 2013. 

6. Mr. Bishara further admitted to forging and filling three prescriptions 

for 12 dosage units each of hydrocodone, which he filled on June 13, 2012; July 

15, 2012; and August 22, 2012. 

7. Hydrocodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), hydrocodone is a Schedule I 
controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. 

Abuse of hydrocodone may lead to severe psychological or physical 

dependence. 

8. On or about July 25, 2013, Dr. D.B., M.D., a Department-approved 

evaluator, examined Mr. Bishara. Dr. Bishara admitted using the diverted 

phendimetrazine and hydrocodone. Dr. Bishara explained that he would fill 

orders for the diverted medications as if a physician had called the order into 

the pharmacy. 

9. Dr. D.B. diagnosed Mr. Bishara with phendimetrazine and oploid 

3 



In Re: The Emergency aesthction of the License Of 

Magdi MikhaII Bishara, R.Ph. 
License Number PS 47410 

Numbe 2013-09121 

abuse, and concluded that Mr. Bishara is not currently able to safely practice 

pharmacy. Dr. D.B. recommended that Mr. Bishara complete a twelve-week 

outpatient program and sign a monitoring contract. 

10. Pharmacists work with highly addictive and potentially dangerous 

controlled substances. Pharmacists must possess good judgment in the 

execution of their duties. 

11. Mr. Bishara's dependence on phendimetrazine and hydrocodone and 

diversion thereof indicate that he does not possess the requisite judgment 

necessary to safely practice pharmacy. 

12. A less restrictive sanction would not sufficiently protect the public 

from the threat that Mr. Bishara poses. Mr. Bishara has demonstrated a 

willingness to abuse his position as a pharmacist to illegally obtain controlled 

substances. Mr. Bishara will continue to pose a danger so long as he has• 

access to controlled substances. Nothing short of the immediate restriction of 

Mr. Bishara's license to practice pharmacy, according to the terms of this order, 

will sufficiently protect the public. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

concludes as follows: 

4 



In Re: The Emergency of the Ucense Of 
Magdi Mildiail Bishara, R.Ph. 

Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09t21 

1. The State Surgeon General has jurisdiction over this matter 

pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.073(8), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), and 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (20 12-20 13). 

2. Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for b]eing unable to practice 

pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, 

narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental 

or physical condition." 

3. Mr. Bishara violated Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012- 

2013), by being unable to practice pharmacy by reason of use of drugs or 

narcotics. 

4. Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for cjompounding, dispensing, 

or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in 

the course of the professional practice of pharmacy." 

5. Mr. Bishara violated Section 465.016(1)0), Florida Statutes (2012- 

2013), by dispensing controlled substances to himself for reasons outside of the 

course of the professional practice of pharmacy. 

5 



In Re; The Emergency Resthcbon of the Of 

Magdi MilthaiI Bishara, R.Ph, 

License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

6. Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for v)iolating any provision of 

this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto." 

7. Section 456.072(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for m]aking misleading, 

deceptive, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of the 

licensee's profession." 

8. Mr. Bishara violated Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012- 

2013), by violating Section 456.072(lj(b), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), by 

obtaining medication by acting as if a doctor had called in an order prescribing 

it. 

9. Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), authorizes the 

Department to restrict a pharmacist's license if the Department finds that the 

pharmacist presents an immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety, 

or welfare. 

10. Mr. Bishara's continued practice as a pharmacist constitutes an 

immediate serious danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the public and 

this summary procedure is fair under the circumstances to adequately protect 

the public. 

6 



In Re: The Emagency of the Ucaise Of 

Magth Mlkhail Bishara, R.P1I. 

Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph., license number PS 

47410, is hereby immediately restricted to prohibit him from practicing 

pharmacy until such time as PRN recommends to the Department that Mr. 

Bishara is safe to practice pharmacy. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal discipline of the license of Magdi 

Mikhail Bishara to practice as a pharmacist will be promptly instituted and acted 

upon in compliance with Sections 120.569 and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013). 

DONE and ORDERED this of , 2013. 

Armstrong, FACS 

State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

7 



PREPARED BY: 

R. Shaffer Claridge, Esq. 

Florida Bar No. 0095549 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245 , extension 8166 

(F) 850-245-4662 
(E) shaffer_claridge@doh.state.fl.us 

8 

In Re: The Emergency Restliction of the License Of 

Magdi Mikhail R.Ph. 

Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 



In Re: The Em&gency of the License Of 
Magdi Mikhail Bistiara, R.Ph. 

License Number PS 47410 
Case Numbe 2013-09121 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sections 120.60(6), and 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is 

judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the Florida Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a Petition for 

Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.100, with the 

District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by law, and a 

copy of the Petition with the Agency Clerk of the Department within 30 days of 

the date this Order is filed. 

9 



Page 1 of2 

Toledo, Marlene 

From: Richard Sebek RSebek@BANKERLOPEZ.COM] 

Sent: Friday, September 06, 2013 3:33 PM 

To: Toledo, Marlene 

Subject: RE: ESO 

Marlene: 
I have it. Thanks. 

Have an enjoyable weekend. 

Sincerely, 

Rick Sebek 
Richard M. Sebek, Esquire 

Banker Lopez Gassier PA. 

501 East Kennedy Blvd. 

Ste. 1500 

Tampa, Florida 33602 

(813) 222-1121 (direct) 

(813) 222-3066 (fax) 

rsebek@ ban ke rio pez com 

From: Marlene_Toledo@doh.state.fl.us mailto: Marlene_Toledo@doh.state.fl.us] 

Sent: Friday, September 06, 2013 12:48 PM 

To: Richard Sebek 
Subject: ESO 

Richard, 

Please find the attached ESO for your client.. Magdi Bishara. 

Can you please send me a quick email verifying you received this? I will also be sending you the hard copy. 

Marlene Toledo 
Medical Quality Assurance Investigator 

DOH - MQA/ISU/St. Petersburg 
525 Mirror Lake Drive North #310A 
St. Petersburg, FL 33701 

Phone: 727-552-2700- Fax: 727-552-1157 
Customer Satisfaction Survey 

cme mission of the (Department of J(ealth is to protect, promote improve the health of all people in Tlorida through 

integrated state, county, and community effbrts. 'Vision: 'To 6e the %eaftutiest State in the glation, 

(Nease note: q'&,th& has a very broad public &nv. EMost written communications to orfrom state çfficials regard'ing state business 

are pub/k recor,Is available to le pu6lic and medIa upon request. 'Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to blic disclosure. 

consider the environment before printing this email ** 

9/9/2013 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flohda through integrated 

state, & efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

VS 

MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R.Ph 

Respondent 

Case No. 2013-09121 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve 

______ 

and related papers; 

____ 

Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

___________ 

to cease and desist; X ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

PATRICK L. Col.EMAN 
commission wEE 677919 
Expires March 19, 2017 
1a Tfrj I,,y Fu bgIgatt tGass?o,g 

HEALTh 

______ 

Administrative Complaint 

________ __________Notice 

X Affiant made personal service on Respondent's attorney on 12013. 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 

in the DON investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 

computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 

(d) Division of Drivers 

Affiant 

State Of Florida 

County Of Pinellas 

Before me, personally appeared Marlene Toledo whose identity is known to me and who, acknowledges that his/her 

signature appears above. 

Sworn to or affirmed by Affiant before me this 9th day of September 2013. 

rr*ir& 
Notary Public-State of Florida My Commission Expires 

LCrJernQfl 
Type or Print Name 

INV FORM 321 



4110 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 06/10/13 Case Number: 201309121 
Subject: MAGDI IAIR BISHARA, R. PH 
2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
Telephone (727) 524-6827 

Source: SELF - REPORT 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: 
PS 47410 Pharmacist Pharmacy 

Report Date: 113 
Period of Investigation: 07/03/13 to 07/08/13 Type of Report: Suppiemental —4 

Alleged Violation: See Final Report 

Synopsis: This supplemental report is predicated on a PSU Request Form (Exhibit #: 54 — 1) from 
SHAFFER CLARIDGE, Attorney in PSU, requesting hand-service of an Order Compelling Examination. 

On 07-03-13, Investigator GREGORY RAMER met with RICHARD M. SEBEK, Attorney for MAGDI 
BISHARA, R. Ph., to hand-serve the Order Compelling Examination. SEBEK was served the Order at his 
office located at 501 E. Kennedy Blvd, Ste. 1500, Tampa, FL. SEBEK hand-wrote a confirmation of receipt 
of the Order on behalf of his client, MAGDI BISHARA (Exhibit #: S4 —2). 

An Affidavit of Service is attached as Exhibit #: 54 — 3 

Exhibits 
S4— 1: PSU request form (page 2) 
54 — 2: Hand-written confirmation of service from Attorney SEBEK (page 3) 
54 — 3: Affidavit of Service (page 4) 

—4 ) 
L.. r 

r 
r 

Related Case(s): None s 
Supervisor 

JUL 092013 Pagel 

Investigator/Date: 07-08-13 
Gregory Ramer TI — 147 
Investigation Specialist II 

Distribution: F-IQ/ISU 

Approved By/Date: 07-08-13 



Phone #: (850) 245-4444 X 8148 CC: Marlene Toledo 

FLORIDA DEPARTMBNT OF 

HEALT 
PSU REQUEST FORM 

FROM: Denise Shannon for Shaffer TO: ISU Karen Hanzal 
Claridge, Esq. 

Date: July 3,2013 TO: CSU 

Case Number: 2013-09121 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject: Magdi Mikhair Bishara, R. Ph HL Code:HLLIOIa Status: 67 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

(J) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in investigative Work (Activity Code ISO) 

Details: Please Hand Serve Order Compelling to Subject's attorney, Ricard Sebek. Please contact 
me by July 20, 13 if you are unable to serve the subject. Thank you very much. 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request: 

Last Known Address Banker Lopez Gassier P.A., 501 East Kennedy Blvd., Ste. 1500, Tampa, FL 33602 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Richard 11. Sebek, Esq., (813) 222-1121 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl Nofl; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being sent? 
YES No NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 
MF YES. please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
ISU/CSLJ) RESPONSE: 

Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 
Email to: 
Pensacola Tallahassee Jacksonville St Pete Tampa Orlando Ft. Myers West Palm Miami 

ço fl-, 
Consumer 

Services ULA 

INV FORM 376, Revised /12. 10, 06/09, 4/09, 11/08 Created 4/05 

- t 
- a 



IeT 
— 

cDi /fl 1 
(cc 

OflPEK C Am 

44M 
cj4-c-I lAtfl 20 

ØJk/A 

EXNIBtT# $v -z 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 

state, county & efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 

vs 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in The Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

Case NO. 2013-09121 
RICHARD M. SEBEKI ESQ. 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida, 

2) That on July 03, 2013, Affiant personally served order compelling examination 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

X Affi ant made personal service of order compelling examination, on Wednesday, July 03, 2013, to Richard M. 
Sebek, Esq. attorney for, Magdi Mikhair Bishara, R. ., at 501 East Kennedy 1 Ste. 1500, Tampa, FL 33602. 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers 

Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

________________________ 

Affiant 

State Of Florida 

County Of Hillsborough 

Before me, personally appeared Gregory Ramer whose identity is known to me by personal knowledge and who, 
acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Type or Print Name 

INV FORM 321 

My Commission Expires 

HEALTH 

I 

Sworn to irmed by Affiant before me this 08th day of July 2013. SJ alt 
of Florida 

Pa $pic/a IA ALLEN 
Commission 1! FF000935 Ires March 20, 2017 
Baids tray Fth, 

C 



A 

a ".- STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: St Petersburg Date of Case: 06/10/20 13 Case Number: 201 3-09121 
Subject: MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R. Ph 

2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
Tel:_(727)_524-6627 

Source: Self Report 

Prefix: PS License #47410 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Pharmacist 07/02/2013 

Period of Investigation: 
07/02/2013 

Type of Report: Supplement 3 

Alleged Violation: Possible violation of ss. 456.072(1)(k)(z) dd) and 465.01 6(1 )(d)(2)(m)(r) F.S. Impaired 
from alcohol/drugs/other; Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation. 

Synopsis: 

This supplemental report is predicated upon receipt of request from PSU to hand serve BISHARA (Exh. S3- 
1) the attached Order Compelling Examination. (Exh. 53-2). 

Service was made via email and U.S. postal service to Attorney RICHARD SEBEK of Banker, Lopez, 
Gassier, PA., 501 East Kennedy Blvd., Suite 1500, Tampa, Florida 33602 on behalf of BISHARA. 

An Affidavit of Service and email confirmation from Attorney SEBEK is Exh 83-3. 
a 

fl 
L- 0 

C 

k 
Related Case(s); none 

Investigator/Date: 

Marlene Toledo, MQAI (P1-47) 0 

Approved By/Date: 

Hanzal, Investigations Supervisor (P1-28) 

Distribution: HO/ISU Page 1 

INV 300, created 07/02 

irvestroatnFe 

.LUL 0 82313 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALT 
PSU REQUEST FORM 

Case Number 2013-09121 
Subject Magdi Mikhair Bishara, R. Ph 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service riquest is being sent? 
YES No NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 
**lF YES, please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 

Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 

Email to: 
Pensacola Tallahassee Alachua Jacksonville St. Pete Tampa Orlando Ft Myers West Palm Ft. Lauderdale Miami 

Consumer 
Services UL.A 

NY FORM 376, Revised 1/12. 10/11,6/10,06/09, 4/09, 11/08 Created 4/OS 

FROM: Denise Shannon for Shaffer 
Claridge, Esq. 

TO: ISU Karen 

Date: July 1,2013 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4444 X 8148 CC: Marlene Toledo 

Board: Pharmacy 
HL Code:HLLIOIa Status: 67 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) ) c 
Z Process Service* (Activity Code I 60) ç 2 

0 
fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) c 

o fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code ISO) ; a 
Details: Please Hand Serve Order Compelling. Please contact me byJuly 18, 2013 if you are 
unable to serve the subject. Thank you very much. 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request 

Last Known Address 2227 Kent Place, Clearwater, FL 33764 Last Known Name & Phone Number: Magdi 
Mikhair Bishara, R. Ph, (727) 524-6827. 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl Nofl; If Yes, When? 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

In Re: The Order Compelling Examination of 
Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph. 
License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

ORDER COMPELLING AN EXAMINATION 

The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency charged 

with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida 

Statutes (2012); Chapter 456, Florida Statutes (2012); and Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes (2012). 

For probable cause shown and pursuant to the authority vested in the 

Department by Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012), you are hereby ordered to 

report and submit to a mental and physical examination to be conducted by the 

following named physician at the date, time and place indicated. 

MENTAL AND PHYSICAL EXAMINATION 

DEBRA M. BARN rE, M.D. 
14437 UNIVERSITY COVE PLACE 

TAMPA, FLORIDA 33613 
(813) 972-7946 

TUESDAY, JULY 23, 2013 © 1:30 P.M. 

The above-directed mental and physical examination is for the purpose of 

obtaining examination reports and expert opinion and testimony concerning 

your ability to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety pursuant to 



Magdi MikhaU Bishara, R.Ph. 
Ucerise Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-0912t 

Sections 456.072(1)(z) and 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012), and for 

introduction into evidence at any administrative hearing to be conducted on any 

administrative complaint filed against you which may allege a violation of 

Section 456.072(1)(z) and/ar 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012). This 

Order is predicated upon the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. At all times material to this Order, Magdi Mikhail Bishara (Mr. 

Bishara), was a licensed pharmacist within the state of Flotida, having been 

issued license number PS 47410. 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Bishara was employed by the 

lgreens Pharmacy ("Waigreens"), maintaining an address of record at 1801 

Gulf to Bay Boulevard, Clearwater, Florida 33765. 

3. On or about May 7, 2013, a co-worker observed Mr. Bishara at the 

filling station filling a prescription for phendimetrazine 35mg. While speaking 

with Mr. Bishara, the co-worker discovered that Mr. Bishara was filling his own 

prescription in violation of Waigreens' policy. Mr. Bishara deleted the 

prescription and gave the medication to the co-worker. Upon further 

inspection, the co-worker noticed that the prescription was for 180 dosage 

units; the bottle which Mr. Bishara had filled contained 200 dosage units. 

2 



Mikhail Bishara, R.PF1. 

License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

4. Phendimetrazine is a stimulant drug commonly used as an appetite 

suppressant. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes (2012), 

phendimetrazine is a Schedule I controlled substance that has a potential for 

abuse less than the substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of the substance 

may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological 

dependence. 

5. On or about May 8, 2013, Mr. Bishara was questioned by the 

lgreens Loss Prevention Officer and officers from the Clearwater Police 

Department. Mr. Bishara admitted to forging the prescription for the 

phendimetrazine. Mr. Bishara also admitted that he had previously forged a 

prescription for 180 dosage units of phendimetrazine 35mg, which he had filled 

on April 1, 2013. 

6. Mr. Bishara also admitted to forging and filling three prescriptions 

for 12 dosage units of hydrocodone, which he filled on June 13, 2012; July 15, 

2012; and August 22, 2012. 

7. Hydrocodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), hydrocodone is a Schedule II 

controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

3 



Flagdi MikhaiI Sistiara, R.Ph. 
Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09t21 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. 

Abuse of hydrocodone may lead to severe psychological or physical 

dependence. 

8. Because Mr. Bishara admitted to forging prescriptions to obtain 

phendimetrazine and hydrocodone for personal use, a thorough and complete 

mental and physical examination is necessary to protect the public and to 

determine whether Mr. Bishara is capable of practicing pharmacy with 

reasonable skill and safety. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Department of Health, by and through the State Surgeon 

General, has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Chapters 456 and 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012). 

2. Section 456.072(1)(z), Florida Statutes (2012), states, in pertinent 

part, "the department shall have, upon a finding of the State Surgeon General 

or the State Surgeon General's designee that probable cause exists to believe 

that the licensee is unable to practice because of the reasons stated in this 

paragraph, the authority to issue an order to compel a licensee to submit to a 

mental or physical examination by physicians designated by the department." 

4 



Maydi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph. 
Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

3. Mr. Bishara's diversion of phendimetrazine and hydrocodone gives 

cause to believe that Mr. Bishara is impaired. Therefore, the State Surgeon 

Genera!, through his undersigned designee, concludes that probable cause 

exists to believe Mr. Bishara is unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill 

and safety, pursuant to Sections 456.072(1)(z) and 465.016(1)(m), Florida 

Statutes (2012). A thorough and complete mental and physical examination of 

Mr. Bishara is necessary to protect the public and ensure that he is able to 

practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety. 

4. In accordance with the authority vested in the Department of 

Health under Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, the State Surgeon 

General, through his undersigned designee, concludes that 456.072(1)(z), 

Florida Statutes (2012), should be enforced. 

DONE and ORDERED by the Department of Health on this 21 day of 

June, 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

3. Martin 
Deputy Secretary for Administration 

5 



COUNSEL FOR DEPARTMENT: 
R. Shaffer Claridge,. Esq. 
Florida Bar No. 0095549 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245-4444, extension 8166 
(F) 850-245-4662 
(E) shaffer_claridge@doh.state.fl.us 

6 

Magdi MikhaH R.Ph. 
Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 



AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

vs 

Petitioner 

MACDI MIKHAIRI R. Ph 

Respondent 

Case No. 2013-09 121 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states 

1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on July 2, 2013, Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve — Administrative 
related papers; X_____ Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

___________ 

to cease and desist; 

__________ 

ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) CheOk applicable answer below 

Affiant 

Complaint and 

Notice 

State Of Florida 
County Of 

Before me, personally appeared Marlene Toledo whose identity is known to me and who, acknowledges that his/her 

signature appears above. 

Swom to or affirmed b ffiant before me this 

Notary Public-State of Florida 

2nd day of July 2013_. 

Type or Print Name 

NV FORM 321 

It CA Lzye,rti 

- 

Mission: 
To protect, promote & mprove the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Stale Surgeon General & Secretary 

X Affiant made personal service on Respondent's attorney, at attorney's office, on July 2, 2013. 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers 

Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others. 

_____________________ 

Madene Toledo 

Pinellas 

My Commission Expires 



a 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: St Petersburg Date of Case: 06/10/2013 Case Number: 2013-09121 

Subject: MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R. Ph 
2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
Tel:_(727)_524-6827 

Source: Self Report 

Prefix: PS License #47410 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Pharmacist 07/02/2013 

Period of Investigation: 
07/02/2013 

Type of Report: Supplement 2 

Alleged Violation: Possible violation of ss. 456.072(1)(k)(z) dd) and 465.016(1)(d)(2)(m)(r) F.S. Impaired 
from alcohol/drugs/other; Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation. 

Synopsis: 

This supplemental report is predicated upon receipt of an email from Attorney RICHARD SEBEK, PA. on 
behalf of BISHARA which includes a written response and BISHARA 's CV. (52-1) 

-4 0 
L.. r rn 

I 

rn 0 
I r 

- rn a n r 

Related Case(s): none 

Investigator/Date: 7 7) 

wr 
Marlene Toledo, MQAI (P1-47) 3 Karen F-Ianzal, Investigations Supervisor (P1-21) 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

.IUL 0 

INV FORM 300, created 1/02 
tan; 

i 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

IN'! PORN 300, created 07/02 

HWe$tiqatjve Serv;ce- 

JUN 26 21113 

Ho 

Office; St Petersburg Date of Case: 06/10/2013 Case Number: 2013-09121 
Subject: MAGDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, It Ph 

2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
Tel;_(727)_524-6827 

Source: Self Report 

Prefix: PS License#47410 Profession; Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Pharmacist 06/24/2013 

Period of Investigation: 
06/24/20 13 

Type of Report: Supplement 1 

Alleged Violation: Possible violationof ss. 456.072(1)(k)(z) dd) and 465.016(1)(d)(2)(m)(r) F.S. Impaired 
from alcohol/drugs/other; Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation, 

Synopsis: 

This supplemental report is predicated upon receipt of photocopies of prescriptions that BISHARA wrote to 
himself from Waigreen's Pharmacy. 's Pharmacy included a Certification of Records. (51-1) 

S 
Ca) 2D 

rn 
C 

C 
I 

1 D 
> 

Related Case(s): none 

Investigator/Date: 

Marlene Toledo, MQAI (P1-47) 

Approved By/Date: 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: St Petersburg Date of Case: 06/10/2013 Case Number: 2013-09121 

Subject: MACDI MIKHAIL BISHARA, R. Ph 
2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 
Tel: (727) 524-6827 

Source: Self Report 

Prefix: PS License #47410 Profession. Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
Pharmacist 06/14/2013 

Period of Investigation: 
06/11/2013 — 06/14/2013 

Type of Report: Final 

Alleged Violation: Possible violation of ss. 456.072(1 )(k)(z) dd) and 465.016(1 )(d)(2)(m)(r) F.S. Impaired 
from alcohol/drugs/other; Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation. 

Synopsis: 
This investigation is predicated upon a self report received from subject (Exh 1) stating he was arrested for 
drug charges. The subject states that he recently turned himself in for unlawfully obtaining diet pills and 
hydrocodone in Pineilas County. The subject states that he is currently in the process of trying to get into a 

diversion program. 

A notification letter, copy of the Case Summary and Voluntary Relinquishment, dated 6/11/2013, were sent 
via U.S. Postal Service to BISHARA. This investigator also hand served BISHARA's mother on behalf of 
BISHARAon 6/12/1 3. (Exh 2) 

A check of DOH computer records revealed BISHARA is currently Clear/Active as a 

was originally issued on 4/6/11 and is set to expire on 9/30/13. 

Patient notification was not necessary due to the allegations. 

BISHARA is represented by RICHARD SEBEK, Esquire, Banker, Lopez, Gassier, P 

Blvd, Ste 1500, Tampa, FL 33602, Tel (813) 221-1121. (Exh 7) 

Pharmacist. His license 

.A. 501 East Kennedy 

Attorney SEBEK stated that he will be sending in a response and BISHARA's CV in the near future. 

—. 

0 
1 8 2013 

D0I1/MQA 

Related Case(s): none 

investigator/Date: 

Marlene Toledo, MQAI 1-47) 

Approved 

Karen Hanzal, inves ations SupeMsor(Pl-21) 

Distribution: 1SU , 
t\. ived Page 1 

INV PORN 300, created 07/02 



DOI-I INVESTIGATIVE REPOV CASE ' 3ER: 2013-09121 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

Ill. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 2 

I : 
JOHN FELLENBAUM - Witness 3-4 
NADER SAID, M.D. — Witness 4 
EDUARDO LAZARO, M.D. — Witness 4-5 
JANELLE SAYLOR, RPT — Witness 5 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and attachments 8 
2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 6/11/13 9-12 
3. llas County Sheriffs Office Subject Charge Report 13-14 
4. Pinellas County Case Progress Docket 15-16 
5. Clearwater Police Report# CWI3-66781 17-41 
6. PRN response — not known to PRN 42 
7. Letter of representation from Attorney Richard Sebek 43 
8. Sworn statement from Dr. NADER SAID 44 
9. Pharmacy records . 45-SO 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1 0)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

lhese records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(10)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of same are 
not maintained in the St Petersburg Investigative Services office 

exhibit contains confidential records concerning reports of abuse, neglect or exploitation of the 
vulnerable adult, including reports made to the central abuse hotline, and is sealed pursuant to section 
41 5.107(1), Florida Statutes 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOP CASE V 2013-09121 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITSIRECORDS/DOC(JMENTS 

Exhibit 3 is Pinellas County Sheriffs Office Subject Charge Report. Date of arrest 5/30/13 charged with: 

1) Obtaining controlled substance through fraud (hydrocodone) F.S. 893.13(7)(a)(9)/F 
2) Obtaining controlled substance through fraud (phendimetrazine) F.S. 893.13(7)(a)(9)/F 

Exhibit 4 is the Pinellas County Court Case Progress Docket. 

Exhibit 5 is the Clearwater Police Department report # CW1 3-66781, which states BISHARA admitted filling 
the following prescriptions for himself: 

• RX806402 and RX2145646 for 35mg Phendimetazine, 180 pills, on 4/1/13 and 5/17/13. 
• RX1563629, RX1658292 and RX2113237 of Hydrocodone-Acet, 12 pills each, on 6/13/12, 7/15112 and 

8/22/12. 
• All prescriptions were filled at Waigreen's Pharmacy where he was employed. 

Exhibit 6 is the PRN response stating BISHARA is not known to PRN. 

Exhibit 7 is a letter of representation from RICHARD SEBEK, Esquire, Banker, Lopez, Gassier, P.A. 501 
East Kennedy Blvd, Ste 15001 Tampa, FL 33602, Tel (813)221-1121. 

Exhibit 8 is a sworn statement from Dr. NADER SAID stating he did not authorize, call-in or sign the 
prescriptions RX 806403 and RX 2145646 for 180 pills of Phendimetrazine. 

Exhibit 9 is the pharmacy records which includes the following: 

• Break down of prescriptions BISHARA filled, showing 5 fraudulent prescriptions. 
• Walgreens call in prescription for Phendimetrazine 35mg #180, dated 4/1/13 
• Waigreens call in prescription for Phendimetrazine 35mg #180, dated 5/7/13 
• Original prescription written and verified by Dr. LAZARO for Vicodin ES #12, dated 4/23/12, 2 refills 
• 2 call in refills for hydrocodone/acetaminophen, #12 

INTERVIEWS/STATEMENTS 

INTERVEW OF JOHN FELLENBAUM —Witness 

Employment: 

Detective 
Pinellas County Sheriffs Office 
INV FORN 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE CASE V 2013-09121 

10750 Ulmerton Rd 
Largo, FL 33778 
Tel: (727) 582-2840 

This investigator interviewed FELLENBAUM at which time he made the following statements 

• BISHARA stated that he used to have a prescription for Phendimetazine from Dr. SAID, but it has since 
expired. 

• Dr. SAID's office is far away and BISHARA did not have time to go out there for an appointment so he 
wrote the prescriptions to himself. 

• BISHARA filled 3 prescriptions for Hydrocodone-Acet using Dr. LAZARO's name, as a call in refill. 
BISHARA was cooperative and admitted he made a mistake. 

• FELLENBAUM advised BISHARA that he would be contacting DOH and recommended that he not work 
anyplace as a Pharmacist until the criminal case is over. 

INTERVEW OF NADER SAID, M.D. — Witness (lic # ME ) 
Employment: 

Florida Pain Medical Management 
8115 State Road 54 
New Port Richey, FL 34655 
Tel: (727) 376-6199 

This investigator interviewed SAID via telephone on 6/13/13 at which time he made the following 
statements: 

• SAID did not prescribe Phendimetrazine or any other medications to BISHARA on 4/1/13, 5/7/13 or any 
time before or after that date. 

• SAID again verified that he did not call, write or have anyone else call in medications for BISHARA. 
• SAID stated he does not call in controlled substances to pharmacies. 

statement is Exhibit 

INTERVEW OF EDUARDO L.AZARO. M.D. — Witness (lic # DN ) 
Employment: 

3165 McMullen Booth Rd 
Bldg A Ste. 2 
Clearwater, FL 33761 
Tel: (727) 796-2183 

INV FORt4 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 
Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPOV CASE V 2013-09121 

This investigator interviewed LAZARO via telephone on 6/14/13 at which time he made the following 
statements: 

• LAZARO wrote the original prescription on 4/23/12 for Vicodin ES, with 2 refills, 12 pills each 
prescription. 

• LAZARO stated the refills would cover dates 4/29/12 and 5/30/12. 
• LAZARO did not write or call in prescriptions for any dates after that time. 

INTERVEW OF JANELLE SAYLOR, RPT Witness (lic # RPT ) 
Employment: 

lgreens Pharmacy 
1501 Gulf to Bay Blvd. 
Clearwater, FL 33756 
Tel: (937) 790-0570 

- 

This investigator interviewed SAYLOR via telephone on 6/14/13 at which time she made the following 
statements; 

• SAYLOR went to a meeting and when she came back BISHARA was there working. 
• BISHARA is a floater pharmacist and she has seen him before working there. 
• BISHARA was filling a prescription and SAYLOR didn't think anything about it until he turned the bag 

around and she saw his name on it. 

• SAYLOR asked BISHARA if the prescription was for him and he told her it was. 
• SAYLOR told him that he couldn't fill his own prescriptions and BISHARA said "really?". 
• SAYLOR asked why he would want to fill his own prescription anyway and give anyone a reason to 

question it. 

• SAYLOR told BISHARA to delete it, re-enter it and she would fill it. 
• When Saylor emptied the bottle to re-fill the prescription she noticed the prescription for Phendimetrazine 

was for 180 and he had 200 pills in the bottle. 
• The next day when they contacted the physician office to verify the prescription, since it was a call in, 

they stated they had no one by the name of the person that supposedly called it in working there. 
• The staff verified with the doctor and he stated he did not have anyone call in the prescription for 

BISHARA. 
• SAYLOR said BISHARA did not appear to be impaired. 

INV FORN 300, Revised 02/08, created 07/02 

Page S 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health .. 

H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

June 11,2013 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
Magdi Mikhail Bishara 
2227 Kent Place 
Clearwater, Florida 33764 

Case #2013-09121 

Dear Mr. Bishara: 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This investigation 
was initiated after it was determined that you may have violated the Nursing Practice Act. 

Within twenty (20) days of receiving this letter, you may: 
* submit a written response to the address below; or 
* call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to submit a 
response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days after the 
Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to confidentiality. 
Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general public. 

You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when the 
investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to the information in the 
investigative file within 20 days of receipt. Your response (if one is provided), along with the information in the 
file, will be considered by the panel when determining whether a formal administrative complaint should be 
filed in this matter. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be represented 
by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this investigation because the 
circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to promote, protect and improve the health of all people in 
Florida. If you have any questions please call us at 727 552-1145. In addition, if you have any concerns 
or suggestions about our complaint process, please fill-out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions 
form at 

Sincerely, 

Marlene Toledo - 

Medical Quality Assurance Investigator 

Enclosure 

Fiorida Department of Heaith www.FioridasHeaith.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of Enforcement TWITrER:HealthyFLA 
525 Mirror Lake Drive North #310A' Si Petersburg, FL 33731 FACEBOOK:FLDeparfrnentofHeaith 
PHONE: 727-552-1145' FAX 727-552-1157 YouTusE: fldoh 

'— / 
. 



CASE SUMMARY 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Case No: 201309121 
Please use this number in all correspondence with the Department concerning this matter. 

RESPONDENT INFORMATION 

License No: 47410 
Name: 
Address: 

Home Phone: 

SOURCE OF INFORMATION 

Name: 
AddrSs: 
Home Phone: 

Department Of Health/Consumer Services Unit 

REPORTED INFORMATION 

Receive Date: 06/10/2013 
Responsible Party: hall5 
Classification Code: 

Source Code: 68 
Status Code: 10 
Incident Date: 05/3112013 

Form Code: 1 

Priority: 1 

Patient Name: 

Possible Code(s): 33, 15, 18 

Summary: 
Possible Violation SS. 456.072(1 )(k)(z)(dd) and 465.016(1 )(d)(2)(m)(r), P.S. 
Impaired from alcohol / drugs I other; Violate Statute / Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation 

Self-report received from the Subject stating she was arrested for drug ctrarges. The Subject states 
that she recently turned herself in of Unlawfully Obtaining Diet Pills and Hydrocodone in Pinel!as 
County. The Subject states that she is currently in the process of trying to get into a diversion program. 
Antoinette Carter 06/1 0113 

0 
• 1 
• %.. a. 

Magdi Mikhail Bishara 
2227 KENT PLACE 
Clearwater, FL 33764 
727-524-6827 

Profession: 2201 Pharmacist 





Q
th

 
F

L 
33

7G
9 

II
II

M
 

70
12

 
04

70
 

00
01

 
38

50
 

13
86

 

k e
cf

la
&

)C
,d

oc
 

ct
., 

S
 

us
 P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 

07
18

00
11

72
40

 
33

71
1 

00
00

17
40

? 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


IICou!-tII llother Rernrrn ,Euenett 
I 

BURKE, CPA 
CLERK OF THE C RCUIT COURT AND COMPTROLLER S COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Adult - Case Progress Docket - Fct K 
Return to Previous Paae Records Main , 

Z,ace tJn4rcrrn Entitlement tlile FIILrJ 

CRCI 3OS47ICFANO 522013CF009471XXXXN0 STATE VS BISHARA,M 05/3112013 
p. Final Dieposition Comp Dtv,cioo 

Name CC 
BISHARAMAGDI DEFENDANT A 

Se'ect Cockets Pvje: 

Select Pacie: 

8 docket entries displayed of 8 Na S.orch 
Current Son is: l Son- 

r<acPt Cirainni sort Docket Dote Docket Wrttr'. 

1 06/03/2013 WArVER OFAPPEARANCE: AT PRE-TRIAL HEARING A 

2 06/03/2013 DEMAND FOR DISCOVERY A 
3 ,2013 WRITTEN PLEA NOT GUILTY-ATTORNEY A 
4 06/03/2013 DEMAND/REQUEST FOR COPY OF INFORMATION A 
5 06/03/2013 WAIVER OFAPPEARANCE: AT ARRAIGNMENT A 
6 75/03/2013 NOTICEOFAPPEARANCE DONALDJ KILFIN A 
7 35/31/2013 COMPLAINT IATT/OBT/CONTROLLSUBST/FRALJD-PE4ENDIMETRAZINE A 
8 05/31/2013 SURETY BOND POSTED A 

Non Scorch 

Select Paae 

Return to Top ot Papa: 

- 

I=CRc& -- 6/6/2013 

— I 
• a. '—c 



Dtnc'r Petotd: t KEN BURKE, CPA 
CLERK OF THE CiRCUIT COURT AND COMrTROLLER 
rINIELLAS COUNTY iDA 

Adult - Case Progress Docket - Fct K 
Return to Previous Page Records Main Menu 

Pinelias Case Uniform Date Filed 
CRCI3O947OCFANO S22O13CFOOQ470XXXXNO STATEVS BISRARA.M 05/31i2013 
hue i Cal Disposition Conip 

Name CCC 

BISHARA.MAGDI DEFENDANT A 

5eiecl Dockets per Par: 
Iioo.iJ 
Submit 

Select Fade: 

S docket entiles displayed of B Ncw Scorch 

Current Sont Is: -Original Sort. 

Nsw Sccrch 

Paa'r 

Roapm to Top i Page: 

L 

t'*r t: 

servlet'icDI=CRC&... 6/6/2013 

- -S 

C,r&tinal àort Dor¼et Dete Doceei Eiitri Oeieridriid 
1 /0312013 WAWER OF APPEARANCE: AT PRE-TRIAL HEARING A 

2 06/03/2013 DEMAND FOR DISCOVERY A 

3 06,03/2013 WRiTTEN PLEA NOT GUILTY-ATTORNEY A 

4 06/03/2013 DEMAND/REQUEST FOR COPY OF INFORMATION A 

5 06/03/2013 WAIVER OF APPEARANCE: AT ARRAIGNMENT A 

6 06/03/2013 NOTICE OF APPEARANCE: DONALD J KILFIN A 

7 ,31/2013 COMPLAINT-OBT/ATT/OBTCOt/TPOLL$UBSTANCEBY FRAUD-HYDRO A 

6 05/31/2013 SURETY BOND POSTED A 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


F age I of I 

Toledo, Marlene 

From: Richard Sebek RSebek@BANKERLOPEZ.dQMI 
Sent: Thursday, June 13, 20132:26 P.M 

To: Toledo, Marlene 

Cc: 'Magdi Bishara' 

Subject: DOH Investigation of Magdi Bishara RPh Case No. 2013-09121 

Ms. Toledo: 
Please accept this as my notice to you that I have been retained by Dr. Bishara to represent him in 

this matter. Please address all future correspondence to me. My contact information is below. 
Sincerely, 

Rick Sebek 

Richard M. Sebek, Esquire 
Banker Lopez Gassier P.A. 

501 East Kennedy Blvd. 
Ste. 1500 

Tampa, Florida 33602 
(813) 222-1121 (direct) 
(813) 222-3066 (fax) 
@bankerlopez.com 

Confidentiality Disclaimer: This e-mail message and any attachments are private communication sent by a law firm, Banker Lopez Gassier 
PA,, and may contain confidential, legally privileged information meant solely for the intended recipient. if you are not the intended recipient, 
you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please notify the 
sender immediately by replying to this message, then delete the e-mail and any attachments from your system. Thank you. 

6/13/2013 
51 —, — 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board: of Pharmacy 
RE: DOH v. Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R. Ph. l Case Number 2013-09121 

MEMBERS: Jeffrey 3. Mesaros, PharmD and Lorena M7Risch 

DATE OF PCP: September 23, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-i .. a.. uts. •u .uu EU Ut...a........ •••.•u...... U•Ua U.ut• , 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 
the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 
information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shafl be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 
Section 465.016(1)(m), FS (2012-2013) 1 

Section 465.016(i)ffl, FS (2012-2013) 
Section 465.016(1)(r), FS (2012-2013) by violating 
Section 456.072(1)(b), FS (2012-2013) 

____ 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

____ 

Case requires expert review 

____ 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

Other 

air use Panel ate 
Board o armacy 



Final Order No. 1793_ERQMQA 
0 5 2013 

Department of ealth JDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

B): 
:lert 

In Re: The Emergency Restriction of the License of 
Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph. 
License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY RESTRICTION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary of 

Health, ORDERS the Emergency Restriction of the License of Magdi Mikhail 

Bishara, R. Ph. ("Mr. Bishara"), to practice as a pharmacist in the State of 

Florida. Mr. Bishara holds license number PS 47410. His address of record is 

2227 Kent Place, aearwater, Florida 33764. The following Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law support the emergency restriction of Mr. Bishara's license to 

practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 456, 

and 465, Florida Statutes (2012-2013). Section 456.073(8), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013), empowers the State Surgeon General to summarily restrict Mr. 

Bishara's license to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida in 

accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012-2013). 

2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Bishara was a licensed 



, Re: The Emergency Restjlaion or the Ucerse Of 
Magdi MiIthait &shara, R.Ph. 
Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued license number PS 

4 

47410, and was employed by the Waigreens Pharmacy "Walgreens") doing 

business at 1801 Gulf to Bay Boulevard, Clearwater, Florida 33765. 

3. On or about May 7, 2013, a co-worker observed Mr. Bishara at the 

filling station at Walgreens filling a prescription for phendimetrazine 35mg. 

While speaking with Mr. Bishara, the co-worker discovered that Mr. Bishara was 

filling his own prescription in violation of Walgreens' policy. Mr. Bishara deleted 

the prescription and gave the medication to the co-worker. Upon further 

inspection, the co-worker noticed that the prescription was for 180 dosage 

units, while the bottle which Mr. Bishara filled contained 200 dosage units. 

4. Phendimetrazine is a stimulant drug commonly used as an appetite 

suppressant. According to Section 893.03(3), FlorIda Statutes (2012-2013), 

phendimetrazine is a Schedule I controlled substance that has a potential for 

abuse less than the substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of the substance 

may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological 

dependence. 

5. On or about May 8, 2013, Mr. Bishara was questioned by the 

Waigreens Loss Prevention Officer and officers from the Clearwater Police 

2 



In : The Emergency Resbiction of the Ucense Of 
Maydi MiktiaiI R.Ph. 
Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

Department. Mr. Bishara admitted to forging the prescription for 

I 
phendimetrazine. Mr. Bishara also admitted that he previously forged a 

prescription for 180 dosage units of phendimetrazine 35mg, which he filled on 

April 1, 2013. 

6. Mr. Bishara further admitted to forging and filling three prescriptions 

for 12 dosage units each of hydrocodone, which he filled on June 13, 2012; July 

15, 2012; and August 22, 2012. 

7. 1-lydrocodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), hydrocodone is a Schedule II 

controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. 

Abuse of hydrocodone may lead to severe psychological or physical 

dependence. 

8. On or about July 25, 2013, Dr. D.B., M.D., a Department-approved 

evaluator, examined Mr. Bishara. Dr. Bishara admitted using the diverted 

phendimetrazine and hydrocodone. Dr. Bishara explained that he would fill 

orders for the diverted medications as if a physician had called the order into 

the pharmacy. 

9. Dr. D.B. diagnosed Mr. Bishara with phendimetrazine and opioid 

3 



In Re: The Emergency Restnthon of the Uce'tse Of 
Bishara, LPh. 

Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

abuse, and concluded that Mr. Bishara is not currently able to safely practice 

pharmacy. Dr. D.B. recommended that Mr. Bishara complete a twelve-week 

outpatient program and sign a monitoring contract. 

10. Pharmacists work with highly addictive and potentially dangerous 

controlled substances. Pharmacists must possess good judgment in the 

execution of their duties. 

11. Mr. Bishara's dependence on pheridimetrazine and hydrocodone and 

diversion thereof indicate that he does not possess the requisite judgment 

necessary to safely practice pharmacy. 

12. A less restrictive sanction would not sufficiently protect the public 

from the threat that Mr. Bishara poses. Mr. Bishara has demonstrated a 

willingness to abuse his position as a pharmacist to illegally obtain controlled 

substances. Mr. Bishara will continue to pose a danger so long as he has 

access to controlled substances. Nothing short of the immediate restriction of 

Mr. Bishara's license to practice pharmacy, according to the terms of this order, 

will sufficiently protect the public. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

concludes as follows: 

4 



In Re: The Resbtion of the Ucense Of 
Magdi Milthail LPh. 
Licaise Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

1. The State Surgeon General has jurisdiction over this matter 

pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.073(8), Florida Statutes (2012-20 13), and 

Chapter 465, florida Statutes (20 12-2013). 

2. Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for "{b]eing unable to practice 

pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, 

narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental 

or physical condition." 

3. Mr. Bishara violated Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012- 

2013), by being unable to practice pharmacy by reason of use of drugs or 

narcotics. 

4. Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for "{c]ompounding, dispensing, 

or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in 

the course of the professional jxactice of pharmacy." 

5. Mr. Bishara violated Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2012- 

2013), by dispensing controlled substances to himself for reasons outside of the 

course of the professional practice of pharmacy. 

5 



In Re: The friergeicy Resthetion of the Ucetse 0? 
Magdi MiIthaiI Bishara, R.Ph. 
License Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

6. Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for v]iolating any provision of 

this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto." 

7. Section 456.072(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects a 

pharmacist to discipline, including restriction, for m]aking misleading, 

deceptive, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of the 

licensee's profession." 

8. Mr. Bishara violated Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012- 

2013), by violating Section 456.072(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), by 

obtaining medication by acting as if a doctor had called in an order prescribing 

it. 

9. Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), authorizes the 

Department to restrict a pharmacist's license if the Department finds that the 

pharmacist presents an immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety, 

or welfare. 

10. Mr. Bishara's continued practice as a pharmacist constitutes an 

immediate serious danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the public and 

this summary procedure is fair under the circumstances to adequately protect 

the public. 

6 



In Re: The of the License Of 
Magdi MIktiaIl Bithara, R.Ph. 
Uceise Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The license of Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph., license number PS 

47410, is hereby immediately restricted to prohibit him from practicing 

pharmacy until such time as PRN recommends to the Department that Mr. 

Bishara is safe to practice pharmacy. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal discipline of the license of Magdi 

Mikhail Bishara to practice as a pharmacist wilt be promptly instituted and acted 

upon in compliance with Sections 120.569 and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013). 

DONE and ORDERED this kday of 

______________. 

2013. 

John . Armstrong, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

7 



In Re: The Emergency Re*icaon or the Ucense Of 
Magdi Mithall Bisttara, R.PII. 
Ucense Number PS 47410 
Case Number 2013-09121 

PREPARED BY: 
R. Shaffer Claridge, Esq. 
Florida Bar No. 0095549 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245-1111, extension 8166 
(F) 850-245-4662 
CE) shaffer_claridge@doh.state.fl.us 

8 



In Re: The Emergency Resttict ion of the License Of 
Magd Mikhail Bãstiara, tPh. 
Uc&ise Number PS 47410 
Case Numba 2013-09121 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sections 120.60(6), and 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is 

judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the Florida Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a Petition for 

Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.100, with the 

District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by law, and a 

copy of the Petition with the Agency Clerk of the Department within 30 days of 

the date this Order is filed. 

9 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201309121 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: BISHARA, MAGDI MIKHAIL 

[ 
Cost to Date ***** 

flours Costs 

F 
Complaint: 1 1 
Investigation: 1291 
Legal: 

I **********I 
sub Total: 11 1 
lExpenses to Date: I I $1,600.00I 

prior Amount: I l 
ITotal Costs to Date: 1 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 12/10/2013 

________ 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida thrnugh integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201212301 

PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: PRAVEEN ANANTHULA 
11413 WAKEWORTH STREET 
ORLANDO, FL 32836 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 
at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 
Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

,S'oa'rd Executive Director 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201212301 

PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: PRAVEEN ANANTHULA 
3952 TOWNSHIP SQ BLVD APT 1212 
ORLANDO, FL 32837 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

I 

Executive Director 
7/BOARD OF PHARMACY / Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 2454444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 

Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & irnprove the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & comrnunity efforth. Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201212301 

PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: PRAVEEN ANANTHULA 
3800 TOWNSHIP SQ BLVD APT 511 

ORLANDO, FL 32837 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

bee sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

o d Executive Dir ctor 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.COm 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
ITrER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 
FACEBOOKFLDepartfllefltOtHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALtEi 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Heatthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201212301 

PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: CHRISTOPHER BROWN 
1101 DOUGLASAVENUE 
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32714 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY = 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 

at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 

Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

S 

Executive ' 
OF PHARMACY 

V Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.Floridasllealth.Gom 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOKFLDepartnientofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: ttdoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

January 14, 2014 

CRAZIANO A. MANCINI 
147 ATHABASCA DRIVE 
KISSIMMEE, FL 34759 

Re: DOH v. Praveen Ananthula 
Case# 201212301 

Dear Craziano A. Mancini: 

I am writing to you concerning the Department of Health's review of certain health care provided by the 
above named health care practitioner. That review included a full investigation and the filing of an 
Administrative Complaint. That review is nearing a conclusion and Board of Pharmacy is scheduled to 
take final disciplinary action in the matter on Wednesday, February 12, 2014. 

This is one of several matters that will be part of the public meeting. You are welcome to attend this 
public meeting, but you are not required to attend, and this is not a request that you attend the meeting. 
Cases shown on the agenda may be heard in a different order or may be heard earlier if all parties are 
present. Cases are scheduled to begin at 9 a.m.; therefore, if you choose to attend it is imperative that 
you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to remain until the case is heard as cases may be heard 
in a different order than they appear on the agenda. 

Florida law provides that the person who made the complaint to the Department ("complainant") is 
entitled to provide oral or written communication to the Board concerning the alleged violation or the 
appropriate penalty. Likewise, the patient/legal representative in the case who was not the 
"complainant" may request that the Board allow them the same opportunity to provide such written or 
oral communication. The Board has granted such requests. If you have any questions concerning this 
matter, please contact the Department's Prosecution Services Unit prior to the meeting at 
(850)245-4640. Please reference the above case number when calling. 

All final disciplinary actions of the Board are reflected in written orders which are available on the 
Department's website at: . Please allow 30-60 days after the board meeting for 
the posting of these orders. 

Si ely, 

// Executive Director 
Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ThVI1TER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C10 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3280 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 'FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the heath 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. flUT 4 John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Praveen Ananthula, R.PH. 

DOH Case Number 2012-12301 

DATE: December 5, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Praveen Ananthula, R.PH. 

Subject's Address of 11413 Wakeworth Street 
Record: Orlando, FL 32836 

Enforcement Address: 3952 Township Square Blvd., Apt 1212 
Orlando, FL 32837 

Additional Address: 3800 Township Square Blvd., Apt 511 
Orlando, FL 32837 

Subject's License No: 42006 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 33661 

Initial Licensure Date: 12/29/2006 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.016(1)(g), F.S. (2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: October 24, 2013 
Fallon & Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Christopher Brown, Esq. 

The Health Law Firm 
1101 Douglas Avenue 
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714 

Complainant/Address: G.M. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
of the General Counsel• Prosecrition Services Unit 

TWITFER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express address: 2585 Merthants te 105 

YOUTUBE: fidob 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4683 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Settlement Agreement 
Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Cost Summary Report 
PCP Memo 
456 materials 
456 Request 
Letters/response 
Confidentiality Agreement (signed) 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1 - 11 

GUIDELINES: 
Section 465.016(1)(g), F.S. — $250 fine and completion of approved CE course in the 
prevention of medication errors of no less than (8) hours uo to Revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This is a one count administrative complaint alleging that Respondent violated Section 
465.016(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012), by furnishing upon prescription an ingredient or article 
different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed. 

At all times material to the Administrative Complaint, Respondent was the prescription 
department manager of record of CVS Pharmacy Store #7973, located in Kissimmee, Florida. 
On or about August 4, 2011, a prescription for Prinzide 20-25 mg was ordered for Patient G.M. 

On or about November 11, 2011, and/or March 3, 2012, Respondent dispensed Lisinopril- 
HCTZ 20-12.5 mg to Patient G.M. 

Terms of Settlement: 
-Appearance at Board meeting required 
-Administrative fine of $1,000 
-Costs not to exceed $2,600 
-CE in Prevention of Medical Errors (8 hour course) 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-12301 

PRAVEEN ANANTHIJLA, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 

________________________________________________I 

SETFLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, 

R.PH., was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been 

issued license number PS 42006. Respondent's mailing address of record 

is 3800 Township Square Boulevard, Apartment 511, Orlando, Florida 

32837. 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 4 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000). The fine shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, llahassee, Florida 32314- 

DOH v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.: 2012-12301 2 



6320, within 90 days from 

incorporating this Settlement 

Department Clerk. 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall 

administrative costs associated with the investigation 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,600.00). Total costs shall 

the Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. 

paid by Respondent to the Department 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the 

with the 

4. 

Department Clerk. 

CE - Respondent shall successfully complete a 

Continuing Education Course on the subject of PREVENTION OF MEDICAL 

ERRORS consisting of eight (8) hours of credit, which has approved by the 

Florida Board of Pharmacy, within one (1) year of the filing of a Final Order 

accepting and incorporating this Settlement Agreement. These continuing 

education hours shall be in addition to the hours required for license 

renewal. Within ten (10) days of completion of the course and/or receipt of 

DON V. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.; 2012-12301 3 

the date the Final Order approving and 

Agreement (Final Order) is filed with the 

impose the total, 

and prosecution of 

THOUSAND SIX 

be assessed when 

The costs shall be 

of Health, Compliance 

Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

date the Final Order is flIed 



the certificate of complelion, Respondent shall mail a copy of the 

continuing education certificate of completion to the Pharmacy Compliance 

Officer at the address Usted in paragraph two (2) above. 

5. Future Conduct - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499, or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

Terms Violation of - It is expressly understood that a 

of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

Final Order - It is expressly 

that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

8. Purpose of Acireement - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

DOH v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.: 2012-12301 4 

6. 

violation of the provisions 

incorporated into the Final 

a violation of an order of 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to 

7. No Force or Effect until 

understood 



authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

9. Not Preclude Additional Proceedings - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

10. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and Costs - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

00)1 V. Praveeri Ananthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.: 2012-12301 

S 



11. Waiver of Procedural Rights - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current Addresses - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

13. Time of the Essence - Time is of the essence in all respects 

concerning this agreement. 

DOll v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.: 2012-12301 

6 



WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this day of 'J'67Z , 2013 

STATE OF 

PRAy EN ANANTHULA, R.PH. 
CASE NO. 2012-12301 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared as-m'vz,.1 , whose identity is known to 
me or by (type of identification), 
and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this of , 2013. 

MICHAEL J. GLANZMAN$ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

Commlssion# EE 110896 

My exp4res Feb.19. 2016 

DOH v. Praveen Artanthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.: 2012-12301 7 

Public 
My Commission Expires: 4 0/c- 



in 
APPROVED this N day of 

___________________, 

2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Kristal Beharry 
Florida Bar No. 0078070 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: (850) 245-4'lll 
Fax: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Kristal.Beharry@flhealth.gov 

R v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 
Case No.: 2012-12301 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-12301 
PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 
I 

ADMINXSTRAmJE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Depaftrnent of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the State of Florida, having been issued license 

number PS 42006. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 3800 Township Square 

Boulevard, Apartment 511, Orlando, Florida 32837. 

4. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was the prescription department manager ("PDM") of record 

of CVS Pharmacy Store #7973, a communiw pharmacy located in 

Kissimmee, Florida. 

5. On or about August 4, 2011, a prescription for Prinzjde 20-25 
mg was ordered for Patient G.M. 

6. On or about November ii, 2011, and/or March 3, 2012, 
Respondent dispensed Lisinopril-HCTZ 20-12.5 mg to Patient G.M. 

7. Section (l)(g) Florida Statutes (2011), provides that 
using in the compounding of a prescription, or furnishing upon 
prescription, an ingredient or article different in any manner from the 
ingredient or article prescribed constitutes grounds for disciplinary action 
by the Board of Pharmacy. 

8. As set forth above, furnished upon prescription an 
ingredient or article different from the ingredient or article prescribed by 
furnishing Lisinoprii-Hcn 20-12.5 mg to Patient G.M., instead of the 
prescribed Prinzide 20-25 mg. 

DOll v. Praveen Ananthuja, LPh. 

2 
Case No. 2012-12301 



9. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

16(1)(g), Florida Statutes (2012), by furnishing upon prescription an 

ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article 

prescribed. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully req uests that the Board of 
Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent% license, restriction of 
practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 
placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 
billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 
Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

_____ 

day of_ 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FlorIda 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: 

v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 

3 
Case No. 1 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

'KB DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK 
DATE l d - 

PCP: 10/24/13 
PCP Members: Glass & Fallon 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, It call and -examine withesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the 
a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other disdpline imposed. 

R v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph, 
Case No. 2012•12301 





 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201212301 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: AN ANTHULA. PRAVEEN 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 12/5/2013 

A 

i___________________ r Hours L Costs 
Complaint: 

1 

0.80 $46.10 

investigation: 17.90 $1,121.54 

jLcgal: ] _ 0.00] 

********H 
ISub Total: 23.501 $l,673.921 
Expenses to Date: $0.00 

Prior Amount: $0.00 

Total Costs to Date: 1 



MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 4 

RE: DOH v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number 2012-12301 

MEMBERS: Leo 3. "Lee" Fallon, BPharm, Ph.D and Glass 

DATE OF PCP: October 24, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: Al ••a_•.•••••..•••.............u..lI........ 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 
the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 
information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1) (g), Florida Statutes (2012) 

____ 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

____ 

Case requires expert review 

____ 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

____ 

Other 

24715 
Chair, Probable Cause Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



)A OH 

Rick Scott John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Governor Surgeon General & Secretazy 

January 15, 2013 

Christopher Brown, Esq. 
The Health Law Firm 
1101 Douglas Avenue 
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714 

Re: Complaint Name: Praveen Ananthula, R.PH. 
Complaint Number: 2012-12301 

Dear Mr. Brown: 

Certified Article Number 
7196 9008 9111 4171 4711 

SENDERS IRD 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, enclosed is a copy of the 
Department's complete investigative file in this matter. Section 456.073(10), 
Florida Statutes provides in part: 

Upon completion of the investigation and a recommendation by 
the department to find probable cause, and pursuant to a written 
request by the subject or the subject's attorney, the department 
shall provide the subject an opportunity to inspect the investigative 
file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the subject a copy of the 
investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may 
inspect or receive a copy of any expert witness report or patient 
record connected with the investigation if the subject agrees in 
writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received 
under this subsection until 10 days after probable cause is found and 
to maintain the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to s. 
456.057. The subject may file a written response to the information 
contained in the investigative file. Such response must be filed 
within 20 days of mailing by the department, unless an extension of 
time has been granted by the department. 

Also enclosed is an invoice for copying charges. Please send a copy of the 
invoice, along with payment, to the Department of Health, Finance and 
Accounting, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 3-01. 

Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C65 'Tallahassee, Florida 32399g265 

Phone: (850) 2454640 • Fax: (850) https://wwwfloridasheajth corn 





PROSECUTION SERVICES UNIT 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, BIN # C65 
TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 32399-3265 

PHONE: (850) 245-4640 

To The Health Law Fimi 
1101 Douglas Avenue 
Aitamointe Springs Florida 32714 

SERVICES RENDERED 

(copy) Pages @$.15 Per Page 

Pages @$.75 Per Page (Color Copied) 

j_ CD @ $8.00 Each 

INVOICE NUMBER I3-358 
DATE January 9,2013 

AMOUNT 

$ 

$ 

$ 8.00 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Payment Options: Cashier Check or Money Order made payable to: 

Florida DOH, Division of MQA 

Please reference the INVOICE NUMBER on your Payment—Mail to the above address. 

Organization Code: 64-22-10-01-022 Expense Code: 497000 

EQ Code: PA 

Profession: Pharmacy 

Case Name: Praveen Ananthula Case Number: 2012-12301 

Charge to Certify Above Copies 

X-Ray Duplication Charge: 
Research Charge (if over one haLf hour) 

At $_per hour x _hours 

Postage & Handling Fees: 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE UPON RECEIPT $ 8.00 



I S CERTIFIED 

4. Delivery? (Extm Fee) 
1. Article lo: 

I jiOJ 
ii 

, Article Number 

7196 9008 9111 4171 

ChnskcØmer 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Christopher E. Brown, Esq. 
The Health Law Firm 
1101 Douglas Avenue 
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714 

May 92013 Certified Article 

7196 tIl 8627 4U70 

SENDERS RECDIRD 

Re: Complaint No. 201 2-12301 
DOH v. Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph 

Dear Mr. Brown: 

I have enclosed an updated copy of the investigative file for your review. The updated disk includes all 
additional materials received after you were initially provided a copy of the above referenced case file. 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, enclosed is a copy of the Department's complete 
investigative file in this matter. Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes provides in part: 

Upon completion of the investigation and a recommendation by the department to 
find probable cause, and pursuant to a written request by the subject or the subject's 
attorney, the department shall provide the subject an opportunity to inspect the 
investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the subject a copy of the 
investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may inspect or receive a copy 
of any expert witness report or patient record connected with the investigation if the 
subject agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received under 
this subsection until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the 
confidentiality of patient records pursuant to s. 456.057. The subject may file a written 
response to the information contained in the investigative file. Such response must be 
filed within 20 days of mailing by the department, unless an extension of time has been 
granted by the department. 

Finally, when opening your disc you will be prompted to enter a password. The password to be entered 
is: 456. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (850) 245-4444 extension 8218. 

Respectfully, 

w 
Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 'Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress , Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address; 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 
PHONE; 850/245-4444' FAX 850/245-4683 

www.FiorjdasHoalth.com 
TTER:HealthyFi.A 

FACE BOOR:FLDeparUnentOfHealth 
YOUTUBE:fldoh 

IäWda 
H EALTH 



KB/cmn 

Enclosures: investigative File #2012-12301 



719h 9008 9111 8627 4070 

456 Disk Additional Material 
Cassandra/Beharry 
Date Mailed 5/8/29 13 
2012-12301 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Reshicted Delivery 

Christopher E. Brown, J.D. 
The Health Law Firm 
1101 Douglas Avenue 
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714 
Tampa, FL 33612 

PS Form 3811, January 2005 

POSTMARK OR DATE 

TO: I 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

PS Form 3800, January 2005 
Postage RETURN 

RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Total Postage & Fees 

usps. 
Receipt for• 

Certified Mar 
No lnsensnce Provided 
Do d Use for lnt.rn.ljonsl Uaj 

2. Article Number 

flUfi 9 19 

3. Service Type CERTIFIED MAILTM 

Restricted ? (Extra Fee) 
1. Article Addressed to: 

7196 9006 9111 8827 '1070 

C. Signelure 

0. Is delivery address dlfteren(frbr, Item 1? 
It YES enter delivery address-below: 

Cute Informaüon 

O 

456 Disk Additional Material 2012-12301 
Cassandra/Beharry 
Domestic Return Receipt 



_____________________________________ 

GEORGE F. INDEST III, J.D., M.P.A., LL.M. 
FLA., LA.ANDD.C. 

BOARD CERTIFIED BY ThE FLORIDA 
BAR IN HEALTH LAW 

BRANCH OFFIcE 
MICHAEL L. SMITH, J.O. 201 E. GOVERNMENT STREET 

Ft..A. PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32531 
REGISTERED RESPIRATORY THERAPIST TELEPHONE: (650) 439-1001 

BOARD CERTIFIED BY THE FLORIDA 
BAR IN HEALTH LAw 

JOANNE KENNA, R.N., J.D. 
FLA. 

REGISTERED NURSE (ILL.) 

CAROLE C. SCHRIEFER, R.N., J.D. 
ELK. AND COLO. 

REGISTERED NURSE (COLO.) 

CHRISTOPHER E. BROWN, J.D. 

LANCE 0. LEI6kA, J.D, 
FLA. 

P.A. 

. 

— 

P A 

Re: Department of Health vs. Praveen Ananthula, . lT Complaint No. 2012-12301 
Our File No.: 1508/001 
REQUEST FOR COPY OF SUPPLEMENTAL DOH INVESTIGATION FILE 

We have been advised that the above-referenced matter is again under investigation. 

In accordance with Chapter 456, Florida Statutes, and the applicable Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.) rules, we are specifically requesting a copy of any supplemental 
investigation of this matter. The copy of the supplemental file should include, but not be limited 
to any additional: medical records, summaries of interviews with witnesses, witness statements, 
receipts, investigator's notes, internal correspondence and memoranda, all notes, expert reviews, 
external correspondence sent or received, and anything and everything else that may be included 
in the , We will, of course, agree to keep the matters contained therein confidential as required 
by law. 

A release/authorization form executed by our client authorizing us to receive information 
and documents from the Department of Health on tins matter is attached. We are also enclosing 
a DOH Acknowledgment of and Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality signed by our 
client. 

THE HEALTH LAw FIRM IS CERTIFIED AS A SERVICE-DISABLED VETERAN OWNED BUSINESS AND A CERTIFIED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE BY THE FLORIDA OFFICE OF SUPPLIER DIVERSITY, 
THE HE&m LAW FIRH 5 CERTIFiED AS A VErBAJI OWNED Swii. BUSMESS BY ThE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF VEruw4s AFFAiRS. 

BRANCH OFFICE 

37 N. ORANGE AVENUE, SUITE 500 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32601 

BRANCH OFFICE 

155 E. BOARDWALK DRIVE, SUITE 424 
FORT COLLINS, COLORADO 80525 

TELEPHONE: (970) 416-7456 
TELEFAX: (868) 203-1484 

a 

THE 
A HEALTH LAW FIRM® 

"THE PHYSICIAN'S ADVOCATES" 

RESPOND ONLY TO MAIN OFFICE: 
1101 DOUGLAS AVENUE 

ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 32714 
TELEPHONE: (407) 331-6620 

TELEFAX: (407) 331-3030 
WWW.THEHEALTHLAWFIRM.COM 

April 29, 2013 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Kristal Beharry, Esquire 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Dear Ms. Beharry 



Kristal Beharry, Esquire 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 4jj 
April 29, 2013 
- Page 2 - 

It is our client's intention to exercise his statutory right to receive and review a copy of the supplemental investigation report and file in this matter before it is forwarded to the Probable Cause Panel. 

In addition, our client may desire, after he reviews the supplemental investigation to provide additionai documents and information, if considered necessary, before this matter is considered by the Probable Cause Panel. This is his right under Florida law. He desires to exercise his right. 

After we have had an opportunity to consult with our client and review his documents, we will decide whether or not he will submit a supplemental written response to you for inclusion in the investigation. 

Again, since you are now aware that the health care provider is represented by counsel, please do not attempt to contact or communicate with the health care provider or any of his employees except through this firm. 

Should you desire to discuss this matter further, you may reach me at the numbers indicated above, If I am not available, please feel free to speak with George F. Indest III, Esquire, another attorney with this firm, who is also familiar with this case. 

Thank you very much for your cooperation in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

THE HEALTH LAW FIRM, by: 

ER E. BROWN 

ends: (1) DON Agreement to Maintain Confidentiality 
(2) Release and Authorization 

cc: Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. (w/out end) 
CEB/ceb 



Kristal Beharry, Esquire 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
CONFIDENTIM 
April 29, 2013 
- Page 2 - 

It is our client's intention to exercise his statutory right to receive and review a copy of the supplemental investigation report and file in this matter before it is forwarded to the Probable Cause Panel. 

In addition, our client may desire, after he reviews the supplemental investigation to provide documents and information, if considered necessary, before this matter is considered by the Probable Cause Panel. This is his right under Florida law. He desires to exercise his right. 

After we have had an opportunity to consult with our client and review his documents, we will decide whether or not he will submit a supplemental written response to you for inclusion in the investigation, 

Again, since you are now aware that the health care provider is represented by counsel, please do not attempt to contact or communicate with the health care provider or any of his employees except through this firm. 

Should you desire to discuss this matter further, you may reach me at the numbers indicated above. If I am not available, please feel free to speak with George F. Indest III, Esquire, another attorney with this firm, who is also familiar with this case. 

Thank you very much for your cooperation in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

THE HEALTH LAW FIRM, by: 

- .e—, 

CHRISTOPHER E. BROWN 

ends: (1) DOR Agreement to Maintain Confidentiality 
(2) Release and Authorization 

cc: Praveen Ananthula, R.Ph. (w/out end) 
CEB/ceb 



Acknowledgment of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

Prjpts.j I am the Subject of an investigation by the 
Department of Health. As the Subject of such an investigation, I am entitled to inspect or 
receive a copy of the investigative report, including any expert witness report or patient records 
connected with the investigation pursuant to Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, if I agree 
in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received under this provision, until 
10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the confidentiality of patient records 
pursuant to section 456.057, F.S. I was provided with a copy of section 456.072, F.S. and 
understand my duty to maintain the confidentiality of patient's records that I received and or 
inspected. 

I understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I v•nt ( 4 do not 
to receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained within the investigative file. 

SIGNED this &rtL day of 

___________________ 

. 
Printed Name: rztt..t+kM I & 

Before me personally appeared 

__________________________________ 

is known to be by - 

under oath, acknowiedges that his/her signature 

Sworn to and subscribed by Respondent day of -.,.. 

4052 Cypress Way B,n C65 • llahassee. FL 32399-3265 4 OSO.245 4640+ 550.24 lax 

5: c:onc,dencialu,, wpd 

whose identity 

L.c? Kce (type of identification), 

appears above. 

before me this 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires 

GEORGE F. INOEST III 
Commission # EE 076324 
Expites e 23, 15 v Ft ka 



AUTHORIZATION TO REPRESENT AND 
FOR RELEASE OF DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION 

TO: Records Custodian of the Department of Health (and any of its professional boards) and the 
State of Florida, or any of its agencies 

I HEREBY REQUEST and authorize you to disclose to my legal counsel: 

George F. Indest III 
The Health Law Firm 
1101 Douglas Avenue 
Altamdnte Springs, Florida 32714 
(or any other member/employee of this firm) 

Any and all files on me including but not limited to the following: 

- Licensure Files (including applications), 
- Reports, Complaints or Investigations, 

Probable Cause Panel file and transcript, if any, 
- Any and all other files or documents of any kind you may have on me, 
- Any correspondence, memos or documents concerning the above. 

TIllS AUTHORIZATION also applies to the release of any and all records of any kind 
that my counsel may request on my behalf. I hereby expressly consent to the release of any 
Psychiatric/Mental Health Records, HIV/AIDS testing records, and Drug/Alcohol/Substance Abuse 
treatment or counseling , I hereby expressly waive any privacy rights or any objection to the 
release of the information or documents described above that I may have pursuant to state or federal laws 
including but not limited to the Federal Privacy Act, The Buckley Amendment (Privacy in Education 
Act), Florida Public Records Act, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 
Privacy Rule, or any other law for the sole and limited purpose of allowing my counsel to receive a copy 
of my records. 

I authorize you to freely discuss this matter with my attorneys indicated above. 

A photostatic or telefax copy of this Authorization for the Release of Documents and Information 
shall be considered as effective and valid as the original. 

/ O9Jo 
1 

(Signature) / a te 

Name (print): 11(%JAMFHUL4 

Soc.Sec.No.: 
, DateofBjrth: - 

In 



4 
A

 

H
E

A
LT

H
 L

A
W

 F
IR

M
®

 
11

0!
 L

A
s A

V
E

N
U

E
 

A
LT

A
M

O
N

T
E

 S
P

R
iN

G
S

, 
D

A
 327

14
 

t 

C
O

N
FI

D
E

N
T

IA
L

 

I 
K

ri
st

al
 B

eh
ar

ry
. 

E
sq

ui
re

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 H
ea

lth
 

40
52

 B
al

d 
C

yp
re

ss
 W

ay
, 

B
in

 C
-6

5 
T

al
la

ha
ss

ee
, 

Fl
or

id
a 

32
39

9 

• . 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 08/21/2012 Case Number: 2012-12301 
Subject: PRAVEEN ANANTHULA, PS 
3952 Township Square Blvd. 
Apt #1212 
Orlando, FL 32837 
386-496-1994 

Source: G.M. 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date: 
PS 42006 Pharmacist 10/04/2012 

Period of Investigation: 08/29/12 through 10/04/12 Type of Report: FINAL 

Alleged Violation: F.S. 465.072(1)(dd), 465.016(1)(g)(i)(r), F.S.; Rules 616-27.1001(1)(c)(3),) and 64B16- 
27.810(1)(d), F.A.C. Violated any of the requirements of this chapter or any of the rules of the Board of 
Pharmacy. Using in the compounding of a prescription, or furnishing upon prescription, an ingredient or article 
different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed..., Violating any provision of this chapter or 
chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto... 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a Case Summary (Exhibit #1) based upon a complaint 
from G.M. a 56 year old male patient. G.M. alleges that ANANTHULA a Pharmacy Manager at CVS Pharmacy 
Store #7973 located at 4500 Pleasant Hill Rd. Kissimmee, FL 34746 dispensed a misfilled prescription. On 
11-11-11 and 03-03-12 ANANTHULA allegedly changed the dosage of 's prescription for Linsinopril- 
HCTZ from 20-25mg to 20-12.5mg. G.M. claims to have had numerous adverse reactions from the mistake. 

ANANTHULA was notified of the investigation by letter (Exhibit #2) dated 08-29-12 to the address of record 
and was provided a copy of the case summary and original documents that initiated the complaint. 

A check of DOH computer licensure records revealed ANANTHULA is currently licensed as a Pharmacist. 

The patient notification letter was not necessary since the source is the patient in this case. 

ANANTHULA is represented by Attorney GEORGE INDEST Ill, Esq., 1101 Douglas Ave. Altamonte 
Springs, FL 32714, 407-331-6620. INDEST sent a letter of representation dated 09/03/2012 
(Exhibit #4). INDEST also requests a copy of the completed investigative . 
The source was notified via letter (Exhibit #3), dated 08-29-12. 

As of the date of this report, there has been no statement from ANANTI-IULA , 
Related Case(s): 201 2-12402 

Terrence Dawkins, Tl-14 
Investigator/Date: 10/04/12 

Investigation Specialist II 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 

1 

I Approved By/Date: 
I Babette S. Agett, 11-115 

Investigation Supervisor 

I 
— OflVestlgatjye U 

. 

— HO 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE URT NUMBER: 2012-1 2301 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 
1 

II.TABLEOFCONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents a 

Interview 
Interview of R.M. (Witness) 4 
Interview of Attorney GEORGE INDEST, Legal Counsel for ANANTHULA (Source) 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

* 
1. Case Summary and attachments 5-16 

* 2. Copy of subject notification letter and attachments, dated 08-29-12 17-30 

* 3. Copy of source notification letter, dated 08-29-12 31 

4. Letter of Representation from Attorney INDEST, dated 09-03-12 32-37 
* 5. Copy of Subject Notification Letters and attachments sent to ANANTHULA's Attorney 

GEORGE INDEST III, dated 09-14-12 and 10-02-12 38-67 
* 6. Copy of Letter Directed to the records custodian for PAMELA WARREN, MS, PA requesting 

patient G.M's original prescription 68 
* 7. Copy of Prescriptions for G.M. from WARREN's office 69-72 
* 8. Copy of Letter sent to CVS Corporate Privacy Office requesting G.M's Patient profile and 

internal incident documentation 7375 
* 

9. Pharmacy Patient Profile for G.M., Sent by CVS Corporate Privacy Office 76-81 

10. Copies of last 3 Pharmacy Inspections completed on facility 22-84 
* 11. Confidential Index 85 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND 
ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REI-URT NUMBER: 2012-1 2301 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 is a copy of the case summary and attachments submitted by G.M.. The attachments 
include; a statement from G.M., a signed Patient Authorization for release of records and copies of 
CVS Pharmacy labels for G.M. were included showing the correctly and incorrectly dispensed 
medication dosages. 

Exhibit #4 is a letter of representation for ANANTHU LA from Attorney GEORGE I NDEST III, dated 
09-03-12. In the letter INDEST requests a copy of the completed investigative report. INDEST 
explains after the completed investigative report is reviewed with ANANTHULA it will be 
determined if they will submit a response or not. 

Exhibit #7 is a copy of the original prescriptions issued by PAMELA WARREN, MS, PA at Dr. 
MONGELLIJZZQ's office, M.G.'s primary care physician in Waterbury, CT. There are three 
prescriptions dated 12-27-11 & 06-01-12. The prescriptions are written for Prinzide 
(Linsinopril) 20-25mg tabs. 

Exhibit #9 is a copy of 's Patient Prescription Record faxed by CVS's Pharmacy Privacy 
Office. The records include G.M's patient profile record for store# 7973 for November 2011 
through February 2012. The record indicates prescriptions filled for G.M. on 11-11-11 and 
03-03-12 was for Linsinopril-HCTZ 20-12.5MG tabs and not Prinzide (Linsinopril) 20-25MG tabs as 
prescribed by his physician. 

Exhibit #10 is a copy of the last three Pharmacy Inspections completed by the Florida Department 
of Health. Inspections passed and were completed on: 04/22/2010, 09/24/2010 and 11/29/11. 

Exhibit #11 is the Confidential Index. 

Interview of G.M. ) 
On 08-30-12, Investigator DAWKINS interviewed G.M. via telephone. G.M. advised he wished for 
his wife R.M. to be interviewed about this incident, that she could explain easier as to what his 
complaint was. G.M. advised she was a witness to the whole incident and was with him through 
every step of this process so far. G.M. stated he would be on the phone line and interject if he 
needed to add any other statements. 

Interview of R.M. ) 
On 08-30-12, Investigator DAWKINS interviewed R.M. via telephone. R.M. stated that her husband 
G.M. was prescribed Linsinopril HCTZ 20-25MG for many years by his primary care doctor in 
Connecticut. R.M. stated during the month of November in 2011 she picked up her husbandb 
medication as she had done many times in the past and this time it looked different, after asking 
the pharmacy if there was a change she was assured the medicine was fine and the pills might 
look different since they switched suppliers. R.M. stated around January of 2012 another 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE URT d NUMBER: 2012-12301 

prescription was filled and again the pills looked different. R.M. noticed G.M. began to gain weight, 
had shortness of breath and swelling in his extremities. Around this time G.M. was contacted by 
his primary care physician and inquired why CVS was contacting them to obtain a new prescription 
for Linsinopril HCTZ 20-12.5MG because they had not changed the dosage nor did they want to. 
R.M. stated she was alarmed and checked the previous prescriptions G.M. had been receiving and 
was shocked to discover the last two fills were a different dosage. R.M. stated that after they went 
to another CVS location and received the correct dosage G.M. dropped 4Olbs, swelling was 
reduced, and he no longer had trouble breathing. R.M. stated G.M. is still in possession of the 
leftover misfilled prescriptions. R.M. stated they had an initial incident with ANANTHUL.A and this 
CVS location dealing with the availability of a prescription prior to this incident with the misfill, to 
which she stated they were told not to speak of and were asked to sign a confidentiality agreement 
and paid an undisclosed amount of money from CVS corporate. R.M. also added she has been 
contacted by CVS Corporate Risk Manager Deborah Rodriguez this time regarding this current 
incident but R.M. refuses to speak with her and won't take an offered settlement. R.M. refused to 
give any more details or circumstances regarding the first incident with CVS. R.M. stated she and 
her husband really would like to see this particular pharmacy loose their license along with any 
pharmacist working at this location. 

Investigator's : An attempt was made to contact Risk Manager Deborah Rodriguez at CVS 
Corporate for comment; however the risk management office declined to comment and referred all 
questions to the CVS Corporate Attorney EDWIN BAVO. EDWIN BAYO is not representing 
ANANTHULA and directed questions to Attorney INDEST. 

Interview of Attorney GEORGE INDEST Ill ) 
1101 DouglasAve. 
Altamonte Springs, FL 32714 
407-331-6620 

On 10-02-12, Investigator DAWKINS made contact with INDEST via telephone. INDEST stated he 
was fully aware of the complaint against his client and he would possibly submit a statement 
pending the completion and review of this initial investigation. INDEST stated he was unaware of 
any other incidents involving his client ANANTHULA and G.M. or R.M. but he would do some 
checking and figure out if he could find out what they were referencing too. This is all INDEST had 
to state at this time. 

Page 4 

_______________________________ 

.4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
WWW.D0H.STATE. FL.US 

RUM DEP 

FILE# 
COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

INSPECTION#____________ Rrnnaso IGE IceD NOT OPERATItG 0 CIWIDE 
INSPECTION 465.017, CHAPTER 893,09 AND CHAPTER 456. FLORIDA STATUTES Note: If establishment is enqaned iii oarentoraventaraJ ccnpoundnq, license must so Indicate and a seperate lnsoecticn form should be coninieled 

NAAIE OF ESTABLISHMENT PERMIT NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE DATE OF INSPECTION Hohctaq 1 LLC. pF(I. flOkflPy't. 
DOING BUSINESS AS! TELEPHONE NUMBER EXTENSION 

STREET ADDRESS CITY COUNTY STATE ZIP gs-oo 14ne r,&e a,. 
DEA NUMBER 

- P-tncun ci 

FL. 
EXPIRATION DATE 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT NAME PDM NOTIFICATION DATE LICENSE NUMBER 0 
VENDOR WHOLESALERPRARMACY 

C C 

VENDOR LICENSE NUMBER 

iSTERED PI-IARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE NUMBER 

flv4. 
2 

fl.4- fl. 
SATISFACTORY NA YES NO 1. Rx department hours open 5 days for 40 hours per week. (64816-28,1081, E.A.C,] D ni—F Cb4r,Sc_rt 'i7 2. Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised, approval date. 64816-27.4w, F.A.CJ 

3. Pharmacist on duty when Rx department open. (64816-28.109, F.A.C1 — :7 — 
4. Properslgns displayed. (466.025(7), 64B16-28.109(1), 164816-26,108'i, 035F,A,c,) — 64816-27.400(6). FA,C.r ip'v k—'rt&tjr' — .3.tpr,ck. 0 — 
5. Written and verbal offer to counsel patients. F.A.C.J z:7 — 
6. PrescrIption department has convenient sinkdwnning water, (64816-28.102(1), F.A.C.J — :7 — 
7. Prescription department clean and safe. (64816-28.102(4), F.A.C.J — 

;74 — 
8, Proper equipment and references as required. 64816—23.102, F.A.C.J — — — 
9. Medication properly labeled, 4650255 F.SJ (648t6-281O8, F.A.C.] 7 — — 
10. COt Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 64816-27.300, F.A.C. (766.101, F.S.J — ' — 
11. Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. (893.04(1) (0)6. ES.] (64816-28.140(3) (b) F.A.C.J 7' — 12, Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64816-27.800, F.A.C.j — — — 
13. Controlled substance records readily le. 893.07 F.S.J — — 
14. Allcontrolled substance prescriptIons contain information required. 693.04(1) (c), F.S.] 7 — — 15. Prescriplions may not be filled in excess of one year or sb months for controls from the date written. — 

893.04(1)(g), F.Sj(64816-28.114, F.A.C.J V — 16. Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. (893.07(1) (a), F.S.) 7' 17, DEA 222 order forms properly completed, 693.07(2), F.S.1 — 
16. Controlled substance Rx information in computer system is retrievable. 21CFR 1306.22] (893.07, F.S] (84B16-28,140, E.A.C.] — — 
19. Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. 21CFR I 304.O4ff21CFR 1306.22] (893.07(4) (b), ] — 
20. Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. (21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)] (64B16-28.140(3)(b), E.A.C.] 
21. Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 10, F.A.C.J 
22. Compounding records properly maintained. (64816-27.700, F.A.C.J 64B16-28.140(4), F.A.C.T 7' 7" — 23. Unit dose records properly maintained. (465.016(1) (I). P.54164816-28.118, F.A.C.]' — 

* Questions with () may be answered /a (not applicable) 
* Note: If establishment is engaged in paranteral/entaral compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed, 

Remarks: ioj 
PAGES 

the laws and rgulaIi & concemed explained, and he information given is true aitu correct to le nest 01 my knowledge. 

Signature of Pharmacist 

b 

I CONADENIJAL 

Print Name - 
NV 359 Revised 06/09 05/07: 6/06, 12102, 12iU0 

Investigator/sr. Pharmacist Signature/ID Number 

öL 1L7 



FILE#_ 1') 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
DO H STATE. FL. US 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

am SP ThIENT OF 

IHEALT 

INSPECTION# NEWOCURRCWTtXNOTOPERATINGD 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY— C4APTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA IUTES Note: IF stablishment is enosoad In oaranlnrawonteral compoundina. license must so indicate and a serareta insoection farm be comoletad 
NAME OF EST BLISHMENT PERMIT R EXPIRATION ATE DA F INSPECTION 

'0' 2 
I 402 

STREET 

j 

COUNTY STATE 7 
DEA NUMBER 

EXPIRATION DATE i-- 
PR RIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER NAME PDM NOTIFICATION DATE LICENSE NUM ER ( VENDOR WHOLESALER PHARMACY VENDOR LICENSE NUMBER 

REGIS RED PHARMA LIIN RN(TECHN1CIAN Lnt LICENSE NUMBER 

g,oz 1 
: — 

SATISFACTORY 
1. Rx department hours open 5 days for 40 hours per week. 64816-28.1081 F.A.C.1 

NA YES NO 

2. Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised, approval date. (64816-27.410, F.AC.] ij 7' 
3. PharmacIst on dutywhen Rx department open. 64B18-28,109, F.A.CJ 
4. Proper signs displayed. (465025(7), ES.] 816-28.109(t), F.A.C.J 64816-28.1081, E.A.C.] F64B16-28.1035F.A.Cj 84816-27.400(8), F.&C.] 
5. Written and verbal offer to counsel (64816-27.820(1), FAG.] 
6. Prescription department has convenient sink/running water. 64B16-28.102(1), F.A.C.] . 
7. PrescrIption department clean and safe. 64816-28.102(4), F.A.CJ 
S. Proper equipment and references as required. (64816-26.102, FAG.] 
9. MedicatIon properly labeled. (465.0255, P.S.] 64816-26.108, F.A.Gj 

'.' 

'' ID. CQI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (64816-27.300, F.A.C. (766.101, F.S.] 
11, PrescrIptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(1) (c) 6, F.S.) 164816-28.140(3) (b), FAG.] 
12. Pharnlacymaintainspatientproflle records. (64816-27.800, F.A.C.I 
13. Controlled substance records readily retrievable, (893.07 (4y8), ] 
14. All controlled substance prescriptions contain Information required, 893.04(1) (c) F.S.] 
15. Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from Ihe date written. 

1893.04(1) (g), F.S.) 64816-28.114, F,A.C.) ..— 
16. Controlled substance inventory teken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. 693.07(1) (a), ES.] 
17. DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07(2), F.S.] " 
18. Controlled substance Rx information in computer system is retrievable. 21CFR 1306.22) 893.07, ] 64816-28,140, F.A.C.y .— "S' 
19. Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. 2ICFR 21CFR 1306.221(893.07(4) (b), F.S.] 
20. Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. 2ICFR 1 308.22(b)(3)] 64B16-28.140(3)(b), EA.Cj 
21, Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 84816-27.210, F.A.C.] 
22. Compounding records properly maIntained. (64816-27.700, F.A.C.] 84816-28.140(4), FACJ* 
23. Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1) (I), 64B16-2g.liS, FAG.] 

Questions with (t) may be answered /a (not applicable) 
I 

Remarks: 

,1 1 
. 

7 .-/- 
I have read n ,hava d is in ection report and Ihe laws a d gulati concerned explained, and tile ipfdmiaflefi ' n is true arid correct to Ihe best of my . 7 -7 
Signature o ha i Dale 

fl40 

* Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enleral compounding, a separate inspection form should be . 
Print Nthe 4 
INY 359 Revised %/O9 Replaces 12/02. iVOO 



COMMUNITY PHARMACY I OIANQZ NEW CiWEIIILY NOT OPEktTirIS 9 OiU1QE neIIER 9 
INSPECT)ON AUTHORITY• CKAPTERA6S.017. CHAPTER 893.09 AND HAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

Flie# 

_________ 

lnsp# 101 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

FLORIDA OWAJCFMENT 

WWW.DOH.STATE.ELUS 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT PERMIT NUMBER DATE OF INSPECTION 

Mn ig49 ' 1 
DEA PRESCRIPTION DEPPaTMENT MM4AGER 4vfl'z, 

STREET ADDRESS TELEPRONE# EXT. t e*Zw- /k 
TYKZ 

I 

COfY /ZIP 
2 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT ER LICENSE 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED IIARMACIST#INTERNITECHNICIAN LICENSE 

Monday Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. C4 ? ji VPVC pj )L / 
Open J'.W ' 2. ?o/Czo) - ajjné 
Close i Sb O 

I Rx depsrtrnenthoorsopen 6 days for 40 hours perweek. 164016-28.1081. F.kC.I '7 

2 Pharmacy lachniciarm otopedy identified and supervised. ,410, F.kC.I 
: 

3 PharmacIst onduty tartan Rn department open. (64016-20.109, FAG.) .7 ...p 

4 Properslgns displayed. (485.025(7), r.sj 64016-2B.109(l), 16'26.1061, F.A.C.J 164316-26.1035, FA.C.I jS4Rle-27.loOl, FAC.] 

5 A verbal artd printed offer to counsel Is made to the patient or the patients agent. 8481 6—27.820(1). F.A.C,} : 
6 Preaolpdondepartnsntresconvenlentsink/rurwdngwater.(64B18-28.102(1).F.A.C.) 

7 Presaiplion departnentciaanand sale. 8.102(4). F.A.C.3 .— 

S Proper equipment and references as required. 516-28.102(5)(al F.A.C.3 — 

9 Medicationpropetlyiabeled. (465.0255, P.S.) (04818.26.105. PAC.) - 2 

to 

II COl Policy and Procedures and quarterly rneetlnga. (766.lOt.F.5j (64816-27305. F.A.C.) 

12 aoard.sppmvad Potty and Procedure Implee'nented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of 000frotied substances. I465.022(4), F.S.( 7 
13 Presaiptione have thedata dispensed and dispensing pharn'aoats. (893.O4IlXcl , P.S.] 64816.20,140(3)(bl, P.A.C.] 

14 Pharmacy mainrains patent proNe records. I64816.27600, F.A.C.I 7 - 

15 Nt confrolled sLtsGncs tOrte contain intomnatien-required. 593.04. P.S.) 
J 

10 Prescriptions for contolted substances are on countetfeit-prool preectiption pass or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor 2nd the quantity and dale l . 

. 9 
17 Presolptons may not be 0)ed in escess of one year or six ntcnthsforcontrotsfmrn the date attltten, lXg), F.S,) (64816-27211, F,A.C.l r 
18 Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and atalisbia for inspection. Isas.07(1)la), F.S,] 

19 DEA 222 orderfonnsproperlycompletod. 189301, PS] r ; 
- 20 Controted substance records and flit information in computer systemb reftievable. I2ICFR 1306.22) (64816-25.140. PA,C.] .; 

21 Controlled subatsece records maintained fot4 ycels. 458.022, .) .r 
22 Certified daily log ORprtntcot rnaintahsed. ICFR 1306.22(bg3fl FAG.] r 
23 Pharmacy in reporting D law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prascriptons within 24 hours or close of business an next btustnese day of earning or Instance. 7 

Reports indude all req,tired lnforrnafon. 465.015(3), P.S.) 

24 Record of theft or significant toss of sit controlled substances is being maintained and in being reported to ilte sherrt within 24 hours of dincovey. (893.07(5). P.S.) 

26 Phamacy is reporting to the POMP within? days of dispensing conbolned substance. (4), P.S.] 

26 Pharritecy with a rem) pharmacy wliolesalerpennit is reporting sales to the Contolted Substance Reporting system ly by the 20th of the following month. 
(499.0121(14), 5.1 H'EJ 

- 27 d phannacist property prescribing. 164916-27.210. FAG.) . . 

25 Compounding records properly maintained. 84616-27.797. F.A.C,]' .— 

129 UnIt dose records properly maintained. 1465.016(lXtl, F.S,( 64616-21118. F.A.C.] 

Pedigree mcorflsreulevsbie. (64F-t2.012(3Ra)2.. (d). F.AC.I .: 

Remarks: 

Note: if establishment is engaged in parentoral/entersi a separate inspection tonn should be completed. 

hate reed and have tied this inspecirn 

PRiNT NAME OF RECIPIENT 

Institutional Representative Dat 
inru 359 Revised OfiT, 10110. triroa, 5/06. 12/02.12100 

ID 

Save 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H.. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201218539 

SERENITY PHARMACY, CORP, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SERENITY PHARMACY, CORP 
23 Sw 8TH AVENUE 
MIAMI, FL 33130 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is required to be present 
at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake 
Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Settlement Agreement 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Diredtor 
7AOARD OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 BakI Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245.4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect prornote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Settlement Agreement 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Serenity Pharmacy, Corp. 

DOH Case Number 2012-18539 

DATE: December 30, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Serenity Pharmacy, Corp. 
Subject's Address of 23 SW 8th Avenue 
Record: Miami, FL 33130 

Enforcement Address: 23 SW 8th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33130 

Subject's License No: 26021 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 19007 

Initial Licensure Date: 3/22/2012 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: Yes 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012) by violating 

Section 499.005(18), F.S. (2012) by violating 

Rule 61N-1.012(1)(a), F.A.C. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: June 20, 2013 

Jeffrey J. Mesaros and Lorena Risch 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHeaith.com 
Office of the General CounselS Proseajflon Services Unit I1TER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE:850/245-4444• FAX 85012454684 



Complainant/Address: DOR/ISU Miami 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Settlement Agreement 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Election of Rights 

Notification Letter 

Cost Summary 

Defense Documents dated 11-07-13 

PCP Memorandum 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 9 

GUIDELINES: No Guideline 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

On or about December 7, 2012 and on or about December 10, 2012, the Department inspector 
found the prescription department to be closed during posted business hours. 

As part of a January 31, 2013 inspection, the Department inspector also conducted an audit of 
the legend drugs Lidoderm patches and Advair 250/50. 

From on or about January 15, 2013 through on or about January 30, 2013, Respondent could 
not provide documentation to account for receipt of six boxes of Lidoderm Patches and three 
boxes of Advair 250/50. 

Terms of Settlement: 
• Appearance 
• $5,000 Fine 
• Costs limited to $2,500 
• Probation — One year 
• Eight hour continuing education course in the prevention of medication errors. 

Florida Department of Health .FlortdasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecubon Services Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchanls Row - Suite 105 IJTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/2454444' FAX 850/245-4684 



- Fax Srp 3 2013 1O;29ui P002/009 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - 

DFPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

V. CASE NO. 2012-18539 
— o 

SERENITY PHARMACY CORP., 

RESPONDENT. 
1 'A S 

St. ELEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Con-iplaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At SI times material to this matter, Serenity Pharmacy Corp., 

was a licensed pharmacy in the state of Florida, having been issued license 

number PH 26021. Respondent's mailing address of record is 23 S.W. 

th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33130. 



Fax Sep 3 2Q13 ID;295ffl P0(12/009 

2. Respondent was charged by an Mministrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of FIVE THOUSAND FIVE DOLLARS ($5,000). The fine shall be 

paid by Respondent to the Department of' Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

COK v. CO'p. 
Case No.; 2(112-18339 2 



Fax Sep 32013 P004/DOS 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

filed wfth the Department Clerk, 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs assadated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND FIVE 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500). Total costs shall be assessed when the 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is filed 

with the Department Clerk.. 

4. . - Respondent shall be placed on j year of 

probation. During the period of probation, Respondent shall be subject to 

the fbllowing terms and conditions: 

a. The Department shall conduct -annual ions to 

ensure compliance with the laws and rules at 

Respondent's physical location at Respondent's cost. 

DCtt v. Pharmacy. Corp. 
No.: 2Q12-18539 

3 

a 



Fax 32012 1010am P005/009 

b. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before 

the Board of Pharmacy during the last three (3) months 

of probation. 

5. CorrectIon of Alleged Deficiencies - At Its sole expense, but 

without admitting any specific deficiency or violation, Respondent shall 

immediately, or at least forthwith, correct and address all deficiencies and 

violations listed or alleged in ths Administrative Complaint, to the extent 

necessary to comØly with Florida law. 

6. Future Conduct - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499, or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

7. Violation of Terms - It is expressly understood that a 

violation of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order or the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

8. No Force or Effect until Final Order - it is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

DOfrt v. Ssei-ity Ptiarmacy, thrp. 
Case No,: 20L2-18S39 4 



Fax Sep 22013 1D:3Dam )6/309 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final . 
9. Purpose of. Agreement - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

athon. with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or condusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents arid matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illeg&ly prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedJngs. 

10 Not Preclude Additional Proceedings - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agtement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

DOll v. Sssiity 
No.: -18539 



Fax Sep 32012 10:30am P007/DOS 

• proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omiss{ons not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

11. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and Costs - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees md costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

12. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

13. Current Addresses Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

• the Compflarice Officer arid shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the cñange. 

14. Time of the Essence - Time of the essence in all respects 

concerning this agreement. 

DON v. Serenity Pharmacy, Corp. 
Case No.: 9539 

. 6 



ax Sep 3 2013 10:29am P002/009 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTT4ENTOF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

IONER, 
V. CASE NO. 2012-18539 

SERENITY PHARMACY CORP., 

RESPONDENT. 

St TLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement ement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint; attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Serenity Pharmacy Corp., 

was a licensed pharmacy in the state of lorida, having been issued license 

number PH 26021. Respondent's mailing address of record is 23 S.W. 
th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33130. 



Fax Sep 2 2D13 13;Z9am P003/DOS 

2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 anti 465, Florida Statutes, and the jutisdictibn of the 

Department. 

2. Responder-it admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement Is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer afl questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of FIVE THOUSAND FIVE DOLLARS ($5,000). The fine shaH be 

paid by Respondent to the Department of Asaith, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin -C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

DON v. SnnI*y Pharmacy, 
2DL248539 

2 



g Sep 2 2313 lQ;29?m P004/DOS 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order 

pProving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

fijed with the Department Clerk. 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shafl impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 
this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND FIVE 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500). Total costs shalt be assessed when the 

Settlement Agreement is presented In the Board. The costs shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is filed 

with the Department Clerk. 

4. - 
probation. 

the followin 

Respondent shall be placed on year of 

During the period of probation, Respondent shall be subject to 

g ternis and conditions: 

a. The Department shall 

ensure compliance 

Respondent's physical 

conduct mi-annual inspections to 

with the laws arid rules at 

location at cost. 

3 

i '. Serenity Ptiarn,acy, Cotp. 
Case No; 2012-18539 



FEX Sep 32013 ID;3Oai! P005/309 

b. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before 

the Board of Pharmacy during the last three (3) months 

of probation. 

5. Correction of Alleoed Defidendes - At Its sole expense, but 

without admitting any specific deficiency or violation, Respondent shall 

immediately, or at least forthwith, correct and address all deficiencies and 

viorations listed or alleged in the Administrative Complaint, to the extent 

necessary to comply with Florida law. 

6. Future Conduct - Respondent l not violate Chapter 456, 

465, or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules proniulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

7.. Violation of - is expressly understood that a 

violation of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the IBoard of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board fbr which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

8. No Force or Effect until Final Order - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 
DOll v. Satnity Ptarmacy, Carp. 

4 



Fax Sep 3 2013 1D:3Own P006/039 

Board and has no fbrce or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order.. 

9. Purnose of. Agreement - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respEct to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presci-ited to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that or 

contravenes any Etipulated fact or condusiort of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement arid other 

dowments and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegafly prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

10, Not Preclude Additional Proceedings - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 
DC}lv. Carp, 

Mo.: ZQ12-18539 
- ' 



Fax Sep 3 2013 10;]Dam PUQI/OUD 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

11. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and Costs - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

12. Waiver of Procedural . - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

13. Current Addresses 
T 

Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

14. Time of the Essence - Time is of the esseAce in all respects 

concerning this agreement. 

DOH v. Serenity Pt'arrnacy, Corp. 
:2-16539 6 



Fax Sep 32013 10;3Oam PUCB/009 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a FinaJ Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement resolution of this 

matter. 

IGNEDthIs I ,2013 

CASE NO. 2012-16539 

STATE OF - 

COUNTY OF e 
Before me personally appeared LEt,cr4 Ho . whose identity is known to 
me or by• Driver r Ce4sc - (type of Identification), 
and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of her 2013. 

( - — 

BEATRIZ CARREON otary Public 
MYCOMMISSION#EE116933 My Commission Expires: 
EXPIRES NOvember06, 2015 n 3930153 FlflsloUcSWaam - 

004 v. Ssenity Pharmacy, Cmp. 
Case 2012-18539 







3. address of record is 23 S.W. gth Avenue, Miami, 

Florida 33130. 

4. On or about December 7, 2012 and on or about December 10, 

2012, a Department inspector attempted to conduct an inspection of 

Respondent at 23 S.W. th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33130. 

5. On or about December 7, 2012 and on or about December 10, 

2012, the Department inspector found the prescription department to be 

closed during posted business hours. 

6. On or about January 31, 2013, the Department inspector 

conducted a routine inspection of Respondent. 

7. As part of January 31, 2013 inspection, the Department 

inspector also conducted an audit of the legend drugs Udoderm patches 

and Advair 250/50. 

8. Lidoderm patches are a local anesthetic. it works by stopping 

nerves from transmitting painful impulses to the brain. 

9. Advair is used to control and prevent symptoms (wheezing and 

shortness of breath) caused by asthma or ongoing lung disease (such as 

COPD). It contains 2 medications: fluticasone and salmeterol. Fluticasone 

belongs to a dass of drugs known as corticosteroicts. It works by reducing 

f v. Serenity Pharmacy Corp. 
2 

case No. 2012-18539 



the irritation and swelling of the airways. Salmetetoi belongs to the class of 

drugs known as long-acting beta agonists. It works by opening airways in 

the lungs to make breathing easier. 

10. According to purchasing records, to include 

invoices and receipts, from on or about January 17, 2013 through on or 

about January 25, 2013, Respondent purchased the following quantities of 

Lidoderrn and Advair: 

11. AccordIng to Respondent's dispensing records, from 

about January 15, 2013 through on or about January 30, 

Respondent dispensed the following quantities of Lidoderm and 

250/50: 

DON v. Serenity Pharmacy Corp. 
Case No. 2012-18539 

on or 

2013, 

Advair 

Drug 

Lidoderm 

Advair 250/50 

Total Quantity Dispensed 

10 Boxes 

6 Boxes 

3 



16. As set forth in paragraphs twelve (12), Respondent cannot 

provide documentation to account for receipt of six (6) boxes of Lidoderrn 

Patches and three (3) boxes of Advair 250/50. 

17. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

5.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 499.005(18), 

Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 61N-1.012(1)(a), Florida 

Administrative Code, which requires that records to document the 

movement of drugs, devices or cosmetics must provide a complete audit 

trail from a persofl receipt or acquisition to sale or other disposition of the 

product or component. 

DOll v. Serenity Pharmacy Corp. 
Case No. 2012-18539 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 2P day of . 2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0091245 

ILED Florida Department of Health 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Office of the General Counsel 

CLERK .AngelSanters 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
DATE JUN_2 fl 2013 FL 32399-3265 

Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: mafthew_wltters@doh.state.fl.us 

PCP: June 20, 2013 
PCP Members: Mesaros and Risch 

DOH v. Serenity Pharmacy Corp. 6 

Case No. 2012-18539 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: I I 

Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health I 

______________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
I 

I John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, efforts. 

I H EALTH I 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

December 30, 2013 

VIA US MAIL 

Serenity Pharmacy, Corp. 
23 SW. th Avenue 
Miami, Florida 33130 

Re: DOH vs. Serenity Pharmacy, Corp. 
DOH Case Number: 2012-18539 

Dear Serenity Pharmacy, Corp.: 

I am in receipt of the settlement agreement executed by you on September 6, 2013 concerning the 
above referenced case. 

Our office is now making preparation for this settlement to be presented at the next meeting of the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy, scheduled for February 12, 2014 in Orlando, Florida. Please be advised 
your case will be set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and 
you will be notified of the date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office at 850-245-4444, ext. 8172. 

Sincerely, 

/ters Mat ewG.Wi 
Assistant General Counsel 

MGW/crl 

cc: file 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel• ProsecuUon Services Unit lealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparbnentof}lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444• FAX 8501245-4683 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201218539 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: SERENITY PHARMACY, CORP 

Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

Complaint: I .6011 1 
25.9011 1 1 

I I 1 
lExpenses to Date: 

50.001 

ITotal Costs to Date: 52,932.701 

l.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 12/30/2013 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Serenity Pharmacy Corp., (MGW) 
Case Number: 2012-18539 

Mgs,qW /jZsszA. 

DATE OF PCP: June 20, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-OS 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

_jc_. Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 499.005(18), 
Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 61N-1.012(1)(a), Florida Administrative 
Code; 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) J 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other: 

MEMBERS: 

C: 

B 

Panel 
acy 

3 
Date 



Office: Miami XI Date of Case: 12/18/2012 Case Number: 
Subject: Source: 
SERENITY PHARMACY CORP, 26021) 
23 SW Avenue 
Miami, FL 33130 
(305) 325-1655 (W) 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2205 26021 Pharmacy Pharmacy 02/08/13 
Period of Investigation: 12/21/12 — 02/08/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged violation of 88. 456.072 (1) (dd) The following acts shall constitute grounds for which the disciplinary actions specified in subsection (2) may be 
taken: violating any provision of this...: F.S. 465.016(1 )(r) The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary action...; 
Compounding, dispensing! or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance...; F.S. 465.023(1 )(c) The department or the board may revoke 
or suspend the permit of any pharmacy...; violated any of the requirements of this chapter or any of the rules...; F.A.c., 64B16.28.1081 Any person who 
receives a community pharmacy permit,..; Pharmacy technicians may perform duties in addition to... Rule 64B16-27.420 All registered pharmacy 
technicians shall identify themselves as registered pharmacy technicians by wearing a type of identification badge that is clearly visible...; Rule 64816- 
28,109 The prescription department of any community pharmacy perrnittee shall be considered closed..,; 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of an inspection in regards to SERENITY PHARMACY 
CORP (Case Summary and Initiating Documents Exhibit #1). A routine inspection was attempted on 12/07/12 at 
SERENITY PHARMACY CORP (PH 260?1) a Community Pharmacy, located at 23 SW th Avenue, Miami, FL 
33130. The pharmacy was closed with a note on the door informing there was an emergency. On 12/10/12 
another routine inspection was attempted but the doors were locked to the public. The owner of the pharmacy 
stated she already got her DEA permit but they haven't bought any prescribed meds 1 because they are still 
waiting to get the insurance companies. It was clarified with the owner that a pharmacist must be there at all 
times when they buy prescribed medication. Since the pharmacy already had their Pharmacy and DEA permits, 
as result pharmacy must buy medication for any incoming patients and be open 40 hours a week. 

SERENITY PHARMACY CORP was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 12/21/12 (Exhibit #2) and was 
provided a copy of the case summary and initiating documents from (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DOH. licensure database reveals SERENITY PHARMACY CORP is currently licensed as a 
Community Pharmacy. 

Patient(s) were identified, thus patient notification was not required. 

SERENITY PHARMACY CORP is not currently represented by an attorney at this time. 

On 01/09/1 3, this Investigator received a written response (via Certified Mail) from SERENITY PHARMACY 
CORP owner, LETICIA MORO. MORO neither admits nor denies the allegations (Exhibit #5). C 
Related Case(s): PS 2012-15537 

;L,) 

Inve tigator/Date: February 5, 2013 App d By/Dat : Februa 5, 2013 nttt 
Jeneice Mayers, Investigation Specialist II Car a Rodriguez, Inve i tor 

Distribution. HQ/ISU - 1 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
8 d INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

I 





DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-18539 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit 3: Contains the Florida Department of State Division of Corporations, listing LETICIA 
MORO as the Registered Agent/Director of SERENITY PHARMACY CORP 
Status: Active 

Exhibit 4: Contains a written response from PDM, ALLAN CAO dated 01/01/13 (including CV), 
received in the Miami Investigative Service Unit Office (via fax) on 01/07/13 and (via 
Certified Mail) on 01/09/13. 

Exhibit 5: Contains a written response from pharmacy owner, LETICIA MORO dated 12/29/12, 
received in the Miami Investigative Service Unit office (via Certified Mail) on 01/02/1 3; 
which contains the following documentation: 

Photo of SERENITY PHARMACY CORP with a note on the door stating the reason 
they were closed 

• MIAMI 's HOSPITAL Emergency Department letter from SERENITY 
PHARMACY CORP owner, LETICIA MORO 

Exhibit 6: Documentation that were obtained from SERENITY PHARMACY CORP on 01/31/13 by 
Inspector WARSHOFSKY, which contains the following: 

Change of SERENITY PHARMACY CORP Prescription Department Manager from 
ALLAN CAO to SILVIA RODRIGUEZ 

• Delivery Sheet for patient PT date 01/23/13 & 01/25/1 3; patient RC date 01/30/13 
& photos 

• SERENITY PHARMACY CORP Delivery Sheet Invoice for date 01/23/13 & 
01/30/13 

• Drug Utilization Report (Detail) pulled from 10/01/12 to 01/31/13 
• Drug Utilization Report (Summary) pulled from 10/01/12 to 01/31/13 
• ANDA Invoice for order date 01/17/13 & order date 01/21/13 
• The HARVARD DRUG GROUP Invoice; invoice date 01/17/13 
• VERTICAL SOURCE Invoice; invoice date 01/25/13 
• Audit done for Lidorderm & Advair patient script was pulled for those drugs filled 

Exhibit 7: Contains documentation from SERENITY PHARMACY CORP 1 LETICIA MORO 
received in Miami Investigative Service Unit Office (via e-mail) on 02/04/1 3, which contains 
the following documents: 

• Copy of SERENITY PHARMACY CORP Controlled Substance Fraud Policy and 
Procedure 

• HD SMITH WHOLESALE DRUG Invoice; invoice date 02/03/13 
• ANDA Invoice for order date 01/31/13 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-18539 

Exhibit 8: Contains copies of SERENITY PHARMACY CORP, Inspection Reports for the following 
dates: 

03/16/12 — (Satisfactory) New Routine Inspection 
E 12/12/12 — (Unsatisfactory) Routine Inspection 

01/31/13 — (Unsatisfactory) Routine Re-Inspection 

INTERVIEW OF SILVIA LEON, MIAMI ISU INSPECTOR — 

DOH/MIAMI INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
8350 NW Terrace, Ste 400 
Miami, FL 33166 
(305) 499-5895 (W) 

On 01/28/1 3, this Investigator interviewed SILVIA LEON at the Miami ISU office. LEON reiterated the 
violations that specified within page two of the Healthcare Practitioner Form, LEON submitted to 
DOH/Consumer Services Unit (Exhibit #1). 

INTERVIEW of SILVIA RODRIGUEZ, CURRENT PONt (LICENSE #36084) — ) 
Residential Address: 
15517 NW 19 Street 
Pembroke Pines, FL 33029 
(305) 331-6490 (C) 

On 01/31/1 3, this Investigator and Inspector, MALDONADO-CANATE presented to SERENITY 
PHARMACY CORP to conduct a re-inspection on the facility and conducted an interview with PDM, 
SILVIA RODRIGUEZ. RODRIGUEZ essentially stated the following: I became the PDM for SERENITY 
PHARMACY CORP on 01/14/13 (Exhibit #6 pg. 30). RODRIGUEZ also stated that she is aware that 
SERENITY PHARMACY CORP has investigations going on with t-I regarding allegations of possible 
violations that were cited on 12/07/12 & 12/10/12 (Exhibit #1 pg. 7). RODRIGUEZ also stated to this 
Investigator that SERENITY PHARMACY CORP just received approval by RX SOLUTION on 01/10/13 
and that the pharmacy filled their first script on 01/11/13 (see Drug Utilization Report Exhibit #6 pp. 35- 
56). 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF ALLAN CAO, PDM — ) 
Residential Address: 
12515 Palm Rd 
North Miami, FL 33181 
(786) 547-3240 (C) 

On 01/07/1 3, this Investigator received a written response from ALLAN CAO, SERENITY 
PHARMACY CORP POM (Exhibit #4). In summary CAO stated the following: "I became SERENITY 

Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-18539 

• -j - 

PHARMACY CORP pharmacy manager on 11/20/12 when I was approached by the owners, because 
they were having all sorts of difficulties and they stated that they needed to sell the pharmacy and I 

wanted to do my due diligence prior to purchase. CAO stated that the pharmacy did no have a 
manager, patients, prescription medication, and no insurance in order to operate. So in order to 
make the pharmacy in compliant, I begun by assuming the manager position. CAO also stated that 
he began working on getting the pharmacy up to standard, including CQI, necessary insurances, etc. 
As we began to work, owners ran out of money (stating that the DEA approval took about 7 months) 
and could not pay a pharmacist 40 hours. Because of this I began the process of requesting 
minimize pharmacist hours with the Board of Pharmacy. The Board advised me that meetings for 
approval of reduction of hours were held every 2 months and the next meeting is in 02/26/13. But 
due to the circumstances with the l and the owner's financial issues, I have removed myself as 
PDM from SERENITY PHARMACY (Exhibit #6 pg. 30). COA further stated that the pharmacy did not 
have any prescription drugs, no dispensing of any kind, no patients, and no insurances to bill. 

STATEMENT LETICIA MORO, PHARMACY OWNER — Subject/Exhibit ) 
Employment Address: 
SERENITY PHARMACY CORP 
23 SW Avenue 
Miami, FL 33130 
(305) 325-1885 (W) 

On 01/02/1 3, this Investigator received a written response from LETICIA MORO, SERENITY 
PHARMACY CORP owner (Exhibit #5). MORO stated the following: Please accept our most sincere 
apology for the difficulties and inconvenience that the recent visit to SERENITY PHARMACY CORP 
has caused. We assure you that this issue is not common problem through out internal 
review process and we believe the cause has strive from lack of experience in this field and 
considering that this is our first time being a owner of a local business. 

On the other hand we are facing some financial difficulties and also the application for our DEA 
permit took us 7 months to get approve. MORO further stated that they accept full responsibility for 
the inconvenience and assure they are taking the necessary steps to prevent this situation from 
happening again in the near future. 

INVESTIGATOR : 
On 01/22/13 at approximately 11:50 am, this Investigator and Miami Inspector WARSHOFSKY 
presented at the a routine investigative visit and to 
conduct a re-inspection on the facility. This Investigator obtained copies of wholesaler invoices 
(Exhibit #6 pp. 57-60). Inspector WARSHOFSKY also conducted an audit for the month of 01/13 by 
using the Drug Utilization Reports from SERENTIY PHARMACY CORP dated 10/01/12 -01/31/13 
(Exhibit #6 pp. 38-56); and Invoice from ANDA, The HARVARD DRUG GROUP, & VERTICAL 
SOURCE (Exhibit #6 pp. 57-60) on Lidoderm and Advair. SERENITY PHARMACY CORP purchased 
4 boxes of Lidorderm and none were on the shelves, but the amount billed/dispensed was 10 boxes. 

Page 5 



! INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-18539 

SERENITY PHARMACY CORP also purchased 3 boxes of Advair and none were on the shelves, but 
amount billed/dispensed was 6 boxes. Pedigree records were no retrievable at the time of the 
Inspections (see Exhibit #8 pp. 85-87 for inspection details). This Investigator and Inspector 
WARSHOFSKY went through the invoices and highlighted in yellow Lidoderm and Advair which were 
the medications that was audited (Exhibit #6 pp. 38, 45, 54, 55, 58, 59, & 60). Also this Investigator 
and Inspector WARSHOFSKY observed two bags of Medication containing prescription for patient 
PT date 01/23/13 & 01/25/13 and patient RC dated 01/30/13 for delivery. The delivery sheet for 
patient PT stated that he will receive 10 medications but the bags only had 3 medications inside 
(see Exhibit #6 pp. 31-33 and photos of medication pg. 34) and the delivery sheet for patient RC 
dated 01/30/13 stated that he will receive 7 medications but the bags only had 2 medications inside 
(see Exhibit #6 pp. 35-36 and photos of medication pg. 37), On 02/04/13 SERENITY PHARMACY 
CORP OWNER, LETICIA MORO e-mailed inspector WARSHOFSKY, SERENITY PHARMACY 's Substance Fraud Policy Procedure, Invoice from HD SMITH WHOLESALE DRUG, and 
ANDA Invoice, but medication was still short for Lidoderm and Advair (Exhibit #7 pp. 79- 82). 

Confidential Index of Name is Exhibit 9. 

Page 6 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


www.sunbiz.org - Department of State Page 1 of 2 

Previous on List Next on List Return To List 

No Events No Name History Submit 

by Entity Name 
Florida Profit Corporation 
SERENITY PHARMACY, CORP 

This detail screen does not contain about th e 2 013 Annual Report. 

Cli ck here to determine if a 2013 Annual Report has been filed. 

Filing Information 

Document Number P11000086364 
FEIIEIN Number 453507336 
Date Filed 
State 
Status 

09/30/2011 

FL 

ACTIVE 

Principal Address 
23 Sw 8TH AVE 
MIAMI FL 33130 

Mailing Address 
23 SW 8TH AVE 
MIAMI FL 33130 

Registered Ageçit Name & Address 
MORO, LETICIA L 5W 8TH AVE 
MIAMI FL 33130 

Officer/Director Detail 

Name & Address 

Title D 

MORO, LETICIA I 

23 SW 8TH AVE 
MIAMI FL 33130 

Annual Reports 

Report Year Filed Date 

2012 03/28/2012 

Document Images 

/2012 — ANNUAL REPORT View Image in PDF format 

m 

http://www.sunbiz.orglscripts/cordet.exe?action=DETFIL&inq_docnumber=P1 3 

Home Contact Us E-FlIing Services Document Searches Forms Help 

Name 

09/30/20 1 1 — Domestic Profit 



www.sunbiz.org - Department qf State Page 2 of 2 

Note: This is not official record. See documents if question or . — 

Previous on List Next on List Return To List Narnesearchi 

No Events No Name History SubmIt 
1 

I 
Home Contact us 

I 
Document Searches E-Flllng Services I Forms 

I 
Help 

I 

Copyright © and Privacy Policies 
State of Florida, Department of State 

http://www.sunbiz.org/scriptsfcordet.exe?action=DETFTL&inqjloc_number=P1 I 



2012 FOR PROFIT CORPCATION ANNUAL REPORT FILED 

DOCUMENT# P11000086364 
Entity Name: SERENITY PHARMACY, CORP 

Current grincipal Place of Business: New Principal Place of Business: 

23 SW 8TH AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33130 

Current Mailing Address: New Mailing Address: 

235W 8TH AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33130 

FEI Number: 45-3507336 FEI Number Applied For 
C ) FEI Number Not Applicable ( ) Certificate of Status Desired 

C 

Name and Address of Current Registered Agent: Name and Address of New Registered Agent: 

MORO, LETICIA L 
238W 8TH AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33130 US 

The above named entity submits this statement for the purpose of changing its registered office or registered agent, or both, 
in the State of Florida. 

SIGNATURE: 

Electronic signature of Registered Agent Date 

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS: 

Title: D 

Name: MOW, LETICIA I 

Address: 23 SW 8TH AVE 
city-St-zip: MIftJvlI, FL 33130 

I hereby certify that the information indicated on this report or supplemental report is true and accurate and that my electronic 
signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under oath; that I am an officer or director of the corporation or the receiver 
or trustee empowered to execute this report as required by Chapter 607, Florida Statutes; and that my name appears above, or 
on an attachment with all other like empowered. 

SIGNATURE: LETICIA MORO OWNE 

Electronic Signature of Signing Officer or Director Date 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

fl - CHANGE IOCfl - NEW NOT OPERAI1NO fl OWNER 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
MEDZDIRECT, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER DATE OF INSPECTION 
12012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT 

SCOTTSEGAL STREETADDRESS 
1065 NE 125TH ST SUITE 207 

f EXT. 
3058910050 

CITY COUNTY 
NORTH MIAMI 23 

STATE/ZIP 
33161 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. 

Open 9AM 9AM 9AM YAM 9AM CLOSED CLOSED 

Close 5PM 5PM 5PM 5PM 5PM CLOSED CLOSED 3. 

SATISFACTORY H/A YES NO 

I Rx department hours open 5 days for 40 hours per week, 164816-28.1081 F,A.C.I 

2 Pharmacy technidans properly identified end supervised. 64816-27.410, F,A.C.I 

3 Pharmacisl on duty when Rx department open. (8461 6-28.1 09. F.A.C.J 

4 Propersigns displayed. 465.025(7), F.S.J (64816-28.109(1), F.A.C.J 64816-28.1081, F.A.C.I 64816-28.1035, F.A.C.] 84816-27.1001, F.A.C.} 

5 A verbal and prInted offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patients agent. (64016-27.820(1), F.A.C.I 

6 Prescription department has convenient sink/running water. 64B16-28.102(1), F.A.C] 

7 Prescription department clean and safe. (64816-28.102(4), F.AC.] 

8 Proper equipment end references as required. 64816-28.102(5Xa). F.A.C.I 

9 Medication properly labeled, 465.0255, F.S.] 64816-28.108, F.A.C.] 

10 ExpFred medications removed from the shelves. 64816-28.110, F.A.C.] 

11 COt Policy end Procedures and quarterly meetings. 766.101, 516-27.300, F.A.C.J 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 465.022(4), F.S.] 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(1)(c) 8, F.S.] (64B16-28.140(3)(b), F.A.C.] 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records, (64816-27.800, F.A.C.] 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. 893.04. F.S.] 

16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof presthption pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the requirements of 456.42(2). F.S.(. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess ofone year or six months for controls from the date written. (893.04(I)(g), F.S.I (64816-27.211, F.A.C.] 

18 Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennisl basis and available for inspection. (693.07(1)(s). F.S.] — — 

19 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 893.07, F.S.] 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computersystem is retrIevable. ICFR 13D6.22J 64816-26.140. F.A.C.] 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 12)(b), F.S.( x 
22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. 21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)J 64816-28.140(3)(b), F.AC.] - 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or dose of business on next business day of teaming of instance. 
Reports include all required information. 465.015(3). F.S.J 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriffwithin 24 hours of dIscovery. 893.07(5), F.S.] (465.015, P.S.] 

25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing confrolled substance. 893.055(4), ES.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14). ES.] 

27 Registered pharmadst property presaibing. (84916-27.210. F.A.C.( 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. (64816-27.700, F.A.C.r 
29 Unit dose records property maintained. (465.D18(1)(l), ES.] 84916-28.116. F.A.C.) 

30 Pedigree records retrtevabte. (84F-12.012(3)(a)2., (d), F.A.C.J 

- Note: if establishment is engaged in parenterat/enteral compounding, a separate inspection fom, should be completed. 

lT. 

ID lS7 

FiIe# 18942 

Insp# 113267 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 455.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 455, FLORIDA STATUTES 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

Remarks: All no responses are not applicable at this time. This is an initial pharmacy inspection. PDM for this facility is Peter Day (PS 16276), although it shows the owners name 
Scott Segal. Appointment set for 1211 7/2012 at 9:30 am. The pharmacist will email me the test label next week. 

I have reai and have had this 'inspection the laws and regulations cencemed herein explained, and attimi that tie informaton herein Is hue and correct to the bes4 of my kaowledge..l have received a copy of 
the Ucensee Bill ol 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT PDM 18276 

llulional Kepresentative 
INV 359 RevIsed 12111. . 9/11, 10/10, 10109, 51C6. 12/02, 12/00 

02-17-2012 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ai -. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
ROUUNE CHMIGE lOG NEW CURRENTtY J CHMtCE 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
MEOZDIRECT, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
25969 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
12/19/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

PETER DAY STREET ADDRESS 
1065 NE 125TH ST SUITE 207 

TELEPHONE# EXT. 
3056913050 

CITY COUNTY 
NORTh MIAMI 23 

/ZIP 
33161 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
16276 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED LICENSE # 

Monday Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

Open 2. 

Close 3, 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

1 Rx departinenthours openS days for4o hours perweek. 64B16-26.1081, F.A.C.] : : : 
2 Pharmacy tedinidans piopeily identified and supeMsed. 64B16-27.420, F.A.C.] — - — >< 

3 164816-28.109,FAC.l — — >< 

4 Propersigns displayed. 465.025(7), F.S.J 64B16-26.109(1), FAC.] 64816-28.1081, FAG.] (64816-28.1035. F.A.C.] (64616-27.1001, F.A.C.] 
— — 

5 A vernal and painted offer to counsel Is made to the patient or the patienfs agent (64816-27.820(1), FAC.] — — >< 

6 164B16-28.102(1).FACj — - — . 

7 lon department dean and safe. (64816-28.102(4), F.A.C.] — — - 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. (64816-26.102(5)(a), F.A.C.] — - — - K 
9 MedIcation properly labeled. 1485.0255. F.S.] (64816-28.108, FACJ — — >( 

10 ExpIred medications removed from the shelves. (64816-26.110, F.A.C.] — — X 
II CQI PolIcy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (766.101, F.SJ (64816-27.300. F.A.C.J — — >( 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure Implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. (465.022(4), F.S.] — - — - K 
13 PrescrIptions have the date dIspensed and dlspenstng pharniadsts. (893,04(1)(c) 8. F,SJ (6461 6-2&140(3)(b), FAC.] — - — - 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (6481 6-27.800, F.A.C.I — - — - >< 

15 AS oontrolled substance prescrIptions contain information (893.04, F.S.] — — >( 

16 PresalptJons forconfrotled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purthased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the requirements of (456.42(2). F.S.]. 

Preaaiptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 893.04(1)(g), F.S.j 16481 6-27.211. F.A.C.J 

18 Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. (893.07(lXa), F.Si — - — - 

19 DEA 222 order forms properly completet 1893.07. F.Sj — - — 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information In computer system is rethevable. 21 CER 1306.22] 64816-28.140, F.A.C.3 — - — - 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for4 years. 485.022(12)(b), F.S.] . — - — - 

22 Cestified daly log OR printout maintained. 2ICFR 1306.22(bX3)] FAC.I — - — - 

23 Pharmacy Is reporting to law lbroement any instance of fraurtlenit prescriptions withIn 24 hours or dose of business on next business day 01' learning of Instance. 
Reports indude all required information. (465.015(3). F.Sj 

24 Record of theft or slgnltlcent loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. (893.07(5). F.S.] (465.015, F.S.l 

25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. j893055(4), F.S.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler pemril is reporting sales tome Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14). F.S.] 

27 Registered pharmsdst properly prescribing. (64816-27210, FAC.J 

28 CompoundIng records properly maintained. 64816-28.140(4), FAC.r 
29 Unit dose records properly maintained. (465.016(l)Q), F.S.] (84816-28.118, FAC.j 
30 PedIgree records retrIevable. (64F-12.012(3)(a)2.. (d). FACJ 

Note: If establishment is engaged In cornpoundng. a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: 

Inspector Mi212 conducted visit for routine inspection. Pharmacy permit was approved sInce 02/2012 and DEA no issaed since 10/201 2. As pharmacy manager Peter Day 
who now dairns to be a consultant for this pharmacy no medication could be purchased yet 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affam that the information given herein is tue and correct toUrs best of my knowledge. I have received a copy ot 

the Licensee Bili of Righta 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Sihiia Leon 

lnsot000rlat sepreseruarive Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 
lNV359 RevIsed /11, 10/10,10109.5/06.12102,12100 

FiIe# 18947 

Insp# 113577 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017. CHAPTER 693.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

FLORIDA OF 

IEALT 

12-19-2012 
Date 

ID mi2l2 



Insp# 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

ROLJI1NE WO j NEW Li NOT OPERAI1NG OWNER Li I 

INSPECTION AUThORITY - CHAPTER 485.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
Serenity Phamiacy Corp 

PERMIT NUMBER 
26021 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
112013 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
FS356621 5 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

STREETADDRESS 
23 SW 8th Ave 

TELEPHONE# EXT. 
(305)325-1885 

CITY COUNTY 
Miami 23 

/ZIP 
33130 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 

Monday Tuesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. Silvia Rodriguez, PS 36084 

Open 9:oOA 9:OOA 9:OOA 9:OOA 9:00A Closed Closed 2. 

Close 5:OOP 5:OOP 5:OOP 5:OOP 5:OOP Closed Closed 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

I Rx department hours S days for4o hours perweek. 64816-28.1081. F.A.C.1 

2 Pharmacy tedlnldans properly identified and supervised. 64B1 8-27.420, F.A.C.l 

3 Pharmadst on duty when Rxdeparbnent open. 64916-28.109, F.A.C.j 

4 Propersignsdisplayed. 485.025(7), F.S.! 64016-28.109(1). 1081. 64B16-28.1035, 64B16-27.1001. F.A.C.1 

5 A verbal and printed otTer to counsel is made to the patient or the pallenrs agent (64816-27.820(1), F.A.C.I 

6 Presaiption department has oonvenient sinWrunning water. 64B16-28.l02(1). FAC.} 

7 Presalption department dean and safe. 64816-28.102(4). F.A.C.I 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. (a), F.A.C.] 

9 Medication properly labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] 64B16-28.108. FAC.] 

10 ired medications removed from the shelves. 64816-28.110, FAC.J 

11 COl Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (766.101, F.S.] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.j 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure Implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 1465.022(4). P.S.) 

13 Prosaiptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmadsts. 893.04(l)(c) 6, P.S.] 64616-26.140(3Xb), FAC.J 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64816-27.800. F.A.C.J 

15 ftJl controlled substance presoiptions contain information required. 893.04, ] 
IS Presalptions for controlled substances am on counterfeit-proof prosciption pads or blanks purthased froma Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of 456.42(2), ]. 
— — — 17 Presatptlons may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date wrItten. FS.] (64B16-27.21 1, FAC.] 

18 Controlled substance inventoiy taken on a biennial basis and available for ,. 893.07(lXa), F.S.] 

19 893.07.F.S.] 
20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer system is retrievable. 2ICFR l30t22] (84B16-26.140, FACJ >( 

- — 21 Controlled substance records maintained (or4years. 465.022(12)(b). F.S.] >c 

22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. ICFR 1306.22(b)(3fl PAC.] : 

23 Pharmacy is reporling to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent presaiplions within 24 hours or dose of business on next business day of learning of instance. 

Reports indude all required Information. 485.015(3), I 
24 Record of thett or significant loss of at confrofled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sl,erW within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), P.S.] 485.015, P.54 

25 Pharmacy is reporttag to the POMP wIthin 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), F.S.] 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler pemitt Is reporling sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 

499.0121(14), P.S.] 

- — 27 Registered pharmadst properly prosaibing. 64816-27.210. PAC.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintaIned. (64816-28.140(4). F.A.c.r 

29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 455.016(l)Q). F.S.] 64816-28.118, FAQ.] - 

30 PedIgree records retalevabie. 64F-12.012(3)(a)2., (d). FAC.] 

31 PreparatIon time does not exceed 1 hour when preparing, and adrninstrabon begins not later than 1 hourlbilowing start of immediate use CSPs. I 5 
32 Preparation Is properly labeled if preparor does not administer or wiliness admInistration when preparing Immediate-use CSPs. 64816-27.797(1) 0). FAC.] — 

Note: if establishment Is engaged In sterile compounding, a separate 'eispedion form should be completed. 

Remarks: MN/A's are not applicable at this time. 
is API. Vertide, and Harvard. 

No control II at this time at this location. 
#10 No expired medication. 
#22 Reviewed daily printout for the last month. 
#12 and #30 See additional remarks page. 

I have read and have had this inspezthri report and the laws and regulatoris concerned herein explained, and do affinn that the 'rifórmaton given herein is true and correct to the best of ny isiowtedge. I have received a copy o/ 

the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Silvia , PS 36084 

01-31-2013 
Date 

FiIe# 

FLORIDA DEPARTMBNr OF 

Institutional xepresentauve 
1NV359 Revised /10,10/09, SetS, 100 Investigator/Sr. Pliarmacjst Signature 

Q2 

ID 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE - ISU 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

CORPORATE NAME 
Serenity Pharmacy Corp 

INSPECTION NUMBER TYPE OF PERMIT 
2205 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/31/2013 

DOING BUSINESS AS FILE NUMBER LICENSE # 
26021 

STREET ADDRESS 
23 Sw 8th Ave 

CITY 
Miami 

COUNTY 
MIAMI-DADE 

TELEPHONE # 
(305)325-1885 

STATE/ZIP 
33130 

EXT# 

Remarks: 

#12 No control fraud policy available for review. . 

#30: Inspector Ml 200 conducted an audit on the following medication for the month of January 2013. 

Lidoderm Patches #30: 

Amount purchased from various wholesalers dud ng January was 4 boxes. None are in stock at this time. Amount billed out is 10 boxes. 

Advair /50 #30 

Amount purchased from various wholesalers dud ng January was 3 boxes. None are in stock at this time. Amount billed out is 6. 

Page: Ot 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is true and correct to the best of 

my knowledge. I have received a copy of the Ucensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT OF RECIPIENT silvia Rodriguez. PDM 

ID mi200 

Institutional KepresentatrQe 

12111,10/11. 01/07.07103 

01-31-2013 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

Pharmacy/Dispensing Practitioner Data Collection Form 
CHMGE LOGE NEWEl CURRINThY CFWIGE OMJER t:i I 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.073, FLORIDA STATUTES AND 64b16-30.002 FAC. 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
Serenity PliarTTlacy Corp 

PERMIT NUMBER 
26021 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/31/2013 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT ! 
CONSULTANT PHARMACIST 

STREET ADDRESS 
23 SW 8th Ave 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 
(305)325-1855 

CITY COUNTY mi MIAMI-DADE 
STATE/ZIP 
33130 

LICENSE# 
— 

101. Pharmacy is compounding nonsterile products. 

— 103. Pharmacy is compounding sterile products. 

105. Pharmacy is compounding sterile products without a prior INV 797 inspection form. — 

106. Pharmacy operates as Internet pharmacy only. 

110. Pharmacy Is in the same location within a pain management clinic or weight loss clinic. 

111. Pharmacy technicians are NOT properly registered. 

125. Pharmacy is accepting cash only for pain medication. 

126. Dispensing practitioner is dispensing controlled drugs. 

128. Dispensing practitioner is dispensing CII and CIII drugs pursuant to F.5. 465.0276. 

29. Dispensing practitioner is dispensing at a location not listed as a practice or satellite location in the licensing module of COMPAS. 

130. Inspector has obtained copies of prescriptions or patient profiles from dispensing practitioner or pharmacy. : 
131. None of the above statements apply. - 

NOTE 

The purpose of this form is to collect data for internal use for the ISU ONLY. It will be used at different intervals to assess 

statewide trends in pharmacy and dispensing practitioners. This form will not be issued to the licensee and is separate from 

the inspection and inspection form that is provided at the completion of the site visit. This information does not exclude the 

inspector/investigator from notification of any immediate issues or concerns initiated at the inspection. The appropriate 

protocol must be followed when any immediate issue is identified, to include documentation of same on the inspection form. 

NV 373 06112,01107 Replaces 

IDmi200 

FiIe# 

___________ 

Insp# 

___________ 

FLORIDA OP - 
YWm.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

Remarks: 
No compounding at this lime. 

PRINT NAME D. Warshofsky 

Investigator/Sr. Pharmaast sign litre also 

01 3 1-2013 /Sr. Iaflarmaust ignature 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda Through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216087 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 
433 HIGHWAY 29 SOUTH 
CANTONMENT, FL 32533 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 

to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 

Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 am.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above arid foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive 

7 BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 

PHONE: (850)245.4444. FA)(: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flonda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Governor 

John H. Armstrongg MD, FACS 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Natrnn 

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

January 14, 2014 

PRESTON E MCDONALD 
5740 WESTMONT ROAD 
MILTON, FL 32583 

Dear Preston E Mcdonald: 

Re: DOH v. Cantonment Pharmacy Inc 
Case# 201216087 

I am writing to you concerning the Department of Health's review of certain health care provided by the 
above named health care practitioner. That review included a full investigation and the filing of an 
Administrative Complaint. That review is nearing a conclusion and Board of Pharmacy is scheduled to 
take final disciplinary action in the matter on Wednesday, February 12, 2014. 

This is one of several matters that will be part of the public meeting. You are welcome to attend this 
public meeting, but you are not required to attend, and this is not a request that you attend the meeting. 
Cases shown on the agenda may be heard in a different order or may be heard earlier if all parties are 
present. Cases are scheduled to begin at 9 a.m.; therefore, if you choose to attend it is imperative that 
you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to remain until the case is heard as cases may be heard 
in a different order than they appear on the agenda. 

Florida law provides that the person who made the complaint to the Department ("complainant") is 
entitled to provide oral or written communication to the Board concerning the alleged violation or the 
appropriate penalty. Likewise, the patient/legal representative in the case who was not the 
"complainant" may request that the Board allow them the same opportunity to provide such written or 
oral communication. The Board has granted such requests. If you have any questions concerning this 
matter, please contact the Department's Prosecution Services Unit prior to the meeting at 
(850)245-4640. Please reference the above case number when calling. 

All final disciplinary actions of the Board are reflected in written orders which are available on the 
Department's website at: . Please allow 30-60 days after the board meeting for 
the posting of these orders. 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 

PHONE: (850) 245.4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOIJTUBE: tldoh 

Sincerely, 

:ive Director 
Board of Pharmacy 



Rick Scott Mission: 
I 

I Governor 
To promote & improve the health 

i of all people in Florida through integrated 
I nut PUd John H. *nnstrong, MD, FACS 

slate, county & community efforts. 

I HEALTH I 

Slate Sumeon General S Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

TO: 
FROM: 

RE: 
SUBJECT: 

MEMORANDUM 
Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
Ana Gargollo-McDonald, Assistant General Counsel 
Determination of Waiver 
DOH v. Cantonment Pharmacy Inc 
DOH Case Number 2012-16087 

DATE: November 26. 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Cantonment Pharmacy Inc 
Subject's Address of 433 Highway 29 S 

Record: Cantonment, FL 32533-1401 
Enforcement Address: 433 Highway 29 South 

Cantonment, FL 32533 
Subject's License No: 2748 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 498 

Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): 465.023(1)(c), FS (2012) 
465.015(2)(c), FS (2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: September 5, 2013; Mesros & Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Preston E McDonald 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion For Determination of Waiver 

Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Exhibit B — Copy of Certified Mail Receipt 
Exhibit C — Affidavit of Service 
Exhibit D — Board Affidavit 

Florida Department of Health m 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecetion Services Unit 
4052 BakI Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOKFLDeparhnentofHealth 
Express mai address: 2585 Merthants Raw - Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 650/245-4444 •FAX 850/245-4683 



Exhibit E — Clerks Affidavit 
Motion to Assess Costs with Attachments 
Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 

Supplemental Investigative Report dated 7/31/ 13 

Supplemental Investigative Report dated 10/29/ 13 

Probable Cause Memorandum 
Correspondence 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1-9 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 
456.023(1)(c). Florida Statutes : 
From an administrative fine of up to $1,500.00 and 1 year probation, to $5,000 fine and 1 year 
suspension. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 

This is a one-count administrative complaint alleging Respondent violated Section 
456.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 465.015(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 
(2012), by selling or dispensing drugs as defined in s. 465.003(8) without first being furnished 
with a prescription. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

• Fine of $2,000.00 
• Costs. 

CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING 
THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

• The recommendation is consistent with the disciplinary guidelines. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16087 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC., 
Respondent. 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 

ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the 

Board of Pharmacy to find that Respondent has waived his/her right to elect 

a method of disposition of the pending Administrative Complaint, to 

determine that no material facts are in dispute, to conduct a hearing not 

involving disputed issues of material fact, and to enter a Final Order. As 

grounds therefore, Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on 

September 5, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached 

hereto as Petitioner's Exhibit A. 

2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights 

form, and Election of Rights forms were sent to Respondent, via certified US 

mail delivery, on September 18,2013 (7196 9008 9111 1387 0964). A signed 



green receipt card was not returned. A copy of the certified mail receipt is 

attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Thereafter, the Department requested personal service on 

Respondent, which was completed on October 29, 2013. The affidavit of 

personal service is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Respondent has not filed with either the Department of Health or 

the Board of Pharmacy, an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading in this case within the twenty-one (21) day period to dispute the 

allegations contained in the Administrative Complaint. Copies of affidavits 

supporting the same are attached hereto as s Exhibits D and E. 

5. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

persons seeking a hearing on an agency 
decision which does or may determine their 
substantial interests shall file a petition for hearing 
with the agency within 21 days of receipt of written 
notice of the decision. 

6. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

• • . any person who received written notice of an 
agency decision and who fails to file a written 
request for a hearing within 21 days waives the 
right to request a hearing on such matters. 



7. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this motion sent to 

his/her address of record, that a copy of the investigative file in this case 

shall be furnished to the Board to establish a prima facie case regarding the 

violations as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

8. The Department has determined that there are no material facts 

in dispute and has concluded that Respondent has waived his/her right to 

elect the method of resolution. 

9. The Department requests that this Motion and a hearing be 

placed on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board 

of Pharmacy. 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived his/her right to elect a method of resolution of this 

matter, find that there are no material facts in dispute, hold a hearing not 

involving material issues of disputed fact based on the information contained 

in the investigative file, find that Respondent violated Chapters 456 and 465, 

Florida Statutes, as alleged in the Administrative Complaint, impose discipline 

in accordance with the disciplinary guidelines, and enter a Final Order. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ana M. Gargollo- cDonald 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar No. 85907 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4681 
Email: ana.gargollo-mcdonald©flhealth.gov 

-4 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion for Determination of Waiver and for Final Order by Hearing 

Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact has been 

(2 A A A .4 
this I day of 

Pharmacy, Inc., 433 Highway 29 South, Cantonment, Florida 32533. 

Assistant General Counsel 

Not 

furnished via U.S. mail 

2013, to Cantonment 

Ana M. [ 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTU, 

PtliI.LONER, 

v. CASE 2012-16087 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC., 

RESPONDENT. 

I IVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc., and 

in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

permitted pharmacy within the State of Florida, having been issued license 

number PH 2748. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 433 Highway 29 South, 

Cantonment, Florida 32533. 

4. On or about February 4, 2013, the Department of Health 

Investigator went to Respondents address of record at 433 Highway 29 

South, Cantonment, Florida 32533, and obtained six (6) azithromycjn 250 

mg tablets, a prescription only medication, without a valid prescription. 

5. Section 5.O15(2)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), it is unlawful for 

any person to sell or dispense drugs as defined in S. 465.003(8) without 

first being furnished with a prescription, 

6. Azithromycin is an antibiotic that fights bacteria and is a 

prescription drug. 

7. Section 465.023(Iyc), lorida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

littee, if the permittee, or any affiliated person, partner, officer, 

director, or agent of the permittee, violates any of the of 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, Chapter 893, Rorida Statutes, or any of the 

rules of the Board of Pharmacy 

Departrnecft i HeaLth v. Canthnmenv Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case ND. 2012-16087 

2 



8. As set forth above in paragraph 4, on or about February 4, 

2013, Respondent, or any affiliated person, partner, officer, director, or 

agent of Respondent violated Section .O15(2)(c), Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

9. Based on the foregoing, Respondent, or any affiliated person, 

partner, officer, director, or agent of Respondent, has violated Section 

.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 5(2)(c), 
Florida Statutes (2012), by selling or dispensing drugs as defined in S. 

465.003(8) without first being furnished with a prescription, 

Departhiegit of Health v, Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case No. 2012-16087 

'p 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restricuon of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 
Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

day of 2013. 

JOHN ft ARMSTRONG MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Ana N. 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 FILED Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255 
Ha. Bar No. 0085907 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 Ext. 8133 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

bATh SEP 

/AGPv1 

PCP: 9/5/2013 
PCP Members; Mesros & Glass 

4 DeparUnent of Heaith V. Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case c 2012-3.6067 



NOTICE OF S 
Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be by counsel or other representative to present evidence and argument, to caB and withesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum isSued on his or her behalf if a hearing is 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 
Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter, Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the 

a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

S i Heafth v. Canthnment Pharmacy, Inc. Case No. 2012-j5087 



7196 9008 9111 1387 0964 

TO: 

Cantonment Rx 
2012- 16087 
AM/ab/Stip Pk 
Sent 9/18/2013 

Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc. 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 

USPS POSTMARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 
Certified Mar 
No Insurance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use for Internalional Mail 

RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Certified Fee — 
Return Receipt Fee 

Resiricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 



USPS.com® - USPS M Page 1 of 1 

liglish Customer Service USP$ Mobile Rugiuterl Sign , 

Search USPS.com or Track Packages 

Quick Tools 
yscu Ship a Package Send Mail Manage Your Mail Shop Business Solutions 
Enter up to 10 Tracking Find 
Fled USPS Locatiu,,s 
Ruy Stamps 
Stheduls a Pickup 
S 0 TM Customer Servlce 

Tracking Have questions? 're here to help. 

CllurtcJe el vuldruss 

Tracking Number: 71969008911113870964 

Requested label is archived. 

Restore Archived Details 

Product & Tracking Information Available Options 
Postal Product: Features: 

Ceditied 5 
September 25, 2013 • 9:32 DelIvered CANTONMENT, FL 32533 

Track Another Package 
your tacking (or receipt) number? 

Track It 

LEGAL ON USPS.COM ON AeOuT.usPS.cOM OThER USPS SITES 

Privacy Policy' Government Services, About USPS Hou,a Ouuinuss Customer Galaway 
terms 1 use, Slumps & , Newsroom, Postal Inspectort 4 , Prinu a Label with Postage USPS Service Alerts Inspector Genarals 
No FEAR Ass C Data t CustDriier Service Forms & Publications , Poslal Explorer 

Delivering Sorutonu to the Last Mile i Careers 
Site Index 

CIJSPS.C0M I 
opyrightt 2013 USPS. All Rights Reserved. 

https://tools.usps.conilgo/TrackConflrmAction.action?tReffhllpage&amp;tLc 1 &amp;t... 11/26/2013 



Mission: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through inte9rated 

state, & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Suigeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be The Healthiest State in The Nalion 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
Petitioner 

vs 

CANTON MENT PHARMACY 
Respondent 

Case No. PH 2012-16087 

I 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That from , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve 

XX Administrative Complaint and related papers; 

_____ 

Order compelling examination(s); 

_____ 

Subpoena(s); 

__________Final 

order; 

___________Notice 

to cease and desist; ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

XX Affiant made personal service on 10/29/13 by serving the AC to GENE R. LACHNEY, RPh at Cantonment 
Pharmacy located at 433 Hwy 29 South, Cantonment, FL 32533. 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on 

the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to 

frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

________________________ 

Affiant 

State Of Florida 

County Of Escambia 

Before me, personally appeared Ben Lanier whose identity is known to me by Personally known 

______________________ 

(type of identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Swom to or affirmed by Affiant before me this 29th day of October, . 
My Commission Expires 

LORA BOYD 

I 1.? S Vj CommSion # EE 869098 
Expires January .2017 

FS Sw.ce 

Type or Print Name 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medicel Quality Assurance- Bureau of Enforcement 
5016 N. Davis - FL 32503 
PHONE: (850)475-5474-FAX (850) 475-5475 bft FACE BC 



Rick Scott 
Mission: 

Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida thrvugh integrated - John H. Annetrong, MD, FACS 
state, eunty & efloris. 

State Surgeon General & Secietaiy 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Affidavit of Non-Receipt 

hereby in my official capacity as I, 

__________________________________________ 

custodian for the licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy as of 

,has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or other 

responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action regarding 

Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc.; , which would affect the Subject's 

substantial interests or rights. 7) 

Records 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally 1 s' ,whose identity is 

known to me personally and who, under, oath, acknowledges that his/her signature 

appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

_______ 

day of 

13. S 
EXPIRES: ember 17,2015 12 

BcSeiTIwu No 

Notary Public 
My commission expires: 

Florida Department at Health 
I 

Office olthe General Counl -Prosecution SeMces Unit I U EXHIBIT 
PHONE: 1245-4444 • FAX 850/2454683 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin 0-65 .fl see FL 32399-1701 I FACESJJ 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all peopte in Florida through Integrated 

state, & community effo!ts, 

Rick Scott 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the NaUon 

AFFIDAVIT 

1, 1. l I , Deputy Clerk for the Department 

Office, hereby certify in my official capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's 

records, that the Department Clerk's Office has not received an Election of Rights form 

or other responsive pleading, which requests a hearing prior to any Department action 

I 

regarding Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc.t 2012-16087. which would affect the 

Respondent's substantial interests or rights. 

CustodianRf Record 
i 

Department Clerk's Office 

V , whose identity is 

known to me personally and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature 

appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of ,2013. 

C 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

Florida Department of Hoaith 
Office of the General Counsel Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4683 

WWWJiI 

FACEBI 

HEALTh 

Clerk's 

Before me, personally appeared 

ANGELA BARTON 

Notary Public -slate of Florida 

My Comm. ExpIres Sep 1.2017 

CommissIon # FF49339 

EXHIBIT 
1 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16087 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC., 
Respondent. 

_I 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry 

of a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner 

states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 



after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 
discipline imposed through final order, or 
citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, for a 

violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to 
the investiaation and orosecution include, but 
are not limited to, salaries and benefits of 
personnel, costs related to the time spent by 
the attorney and other personnel working on 
the case. and y other expenses incurred by 
the deoartment for the case. The board, or 
the department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written objections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has 

resulted in costs in the total amount of $1,421.71, based on the 

following itemized statement of costs: 

I 
1 

Cost to Date ***** 
I 

Hours 
] 

Costs 

laint: 1 $846.781 

Legal: 1 
Compliance: l $0.00 

Sub Total: 19.20 $1,421.71] 

Expenses to 
Date: 0 00 

Prior l 
2 



Amount: 
I _ 

jTotal Costs 

Ito Date: $1,421.71 

Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $879.72 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of 

the costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests 

that the Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based 

upon its consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any 

timely-filed written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $879.72 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any 

other discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

3 





CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

to A ess Costs as been provided by U.S. Mail this 

day of - . 2013, to Cantonment 

Pharmacy, Inc., 433 Highway 29 

I HEREBY 

Florida 32533. 

Ana M. Gargollo- 
Assistant General Counsel 

5 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2012-1 6087 (Department of Health v. CANTONMENT 
PHARMACY, INC.) are ONE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED 
TWENTY-ONE DOLLARS AND SEVENTY-ONE CENTS ($1,421.71). 

6) The costs for DOH case number(s) 2012-1 6087 (Department of Health 
v. CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 

(Cost Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case number(s) 2012- 
16087 (Department of Health v. CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC.) 
are detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

I of 2 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me day orN 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

TOWANDA B. BURNEIr 
Commission # EE 838342 
Expires September 25, 2016 

COO-385.701D 

Name of Notary Printed - 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 

\(fl C 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201216087 

Page 1 of I 

Subject's Name: CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 
***** Cost to Date 

Hours Costs 
0.60 

I 
$846.78 

Legal: OD 1 1 l 
********** I 

ISub Total: j 19.201 $1,421.71 
Expenses to Date: 

Prior Amount: $0.00 
Total Costs to Date: 

1 

$1,421.71 

http://mqaapps.doh. state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRA}CJCSDETL,ASP 
I 



**
* 

C
O

N
FI

D
E

N
T

IA
L

 *
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
08

7 
R

ep
or

l 
D

al
e 

12
/0

2/
20

13
 

Pa
ge

 1
 
of

 4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 U
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ll 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

N
SU

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

I 

H
A

l 
IS

 
0.

50
 

$5
4.

90
 

Il
S 

0.
50

 
$5

4.
90

 
H

A
llS

.. 
0.

10
 

$5
4.

90
 

$2
7.

45
 

$2
7.

45
 

$5
.4

9 

10
/3

0/
20

12
 

04
/1

1/
20

13
 

05
/1

6/
20

13
 

7 

78
 

14
4 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
IN

T
 

C
SU

 i
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
10

 
$6

0.
39

 

IC
A

T
IV

E
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
U

N
IT

 
I 

13
5 

0.
10

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

.1
2 

11
/1

6/
20

12
 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

20
 

$6
1.

19
 

$1
2.

24
 

11
/2

0/
20

12
 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

13
5 

0.
10

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

.1
2 

11
/2

6/
20

12
 

7 
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

10
 

$6
1.

19
 

$6
.1

2 
11

/2
7/

20
12

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

13
5 

0.
10

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

.1
2 

11
/3

0/
20

12
 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

B
I3

5 
10

 
$6

1.
19

 
$6

.1
2 

11
/3

0/
20

12
 

7 
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
12

/0
5/

20
12

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
B

13
5 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
12

/1
1/

20
12

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

13
5 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
12

/1
3/

20
 1

2 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

iO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

12
/1

9/
20

12
 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

0l
/0

8/
20

13
 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

1/
09

/2
01

3 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
-2

01
3 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
01

/1
1/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
PO

R
T

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

13
5 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
01

/1
7/

20
13

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

01
/2

8/
20

13
 

7 
PR

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
01

/3
1/

20
13

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

02
/0

4/
20

13
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
L

 T
IM

E
 

5 
0.

1.
0 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
02

/0
4/

20
13

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
02

/0
5/

20
 1

3 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
02

/0
8/

20
 13

 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

13
5 

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
03

/2
8/

20
 1

3 
7 

PR
E

L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
E

X
H

IB
IT

 

Fl
or

id
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

a 



ol
 

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

**
* 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ite
m

iz
ek

i C
os

t b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
08

7 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
12

/0
2/

20
 1

3 
P

ag
e 

2 
of

 4
 

St
af

f 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

St
af

f R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

13
5 

0.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

9.
19

 
04

/0
1/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

30
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
9.

19
 

04
/0

5/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

04
/1

7/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

04
/1

7/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

04
/l8

/2
01

3 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

81
35

 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
04

/1
8/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

31
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

05
/0

2/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
81

35
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
05

/0
2/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

31
35

 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
05

/0
6/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

31
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

05
/0

6/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

05
/1

0/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

05
/1

4/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

.4
0 

05
/1

5/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
13

5 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
05

/1
5/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

31
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

05
/1

6/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
31

35
 

0.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
56

.4
0 

05
/1

7/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

81
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

05
/1

7/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
31

35
 

0.
40

 
$6

3.
98

 
$2

5.
59

 
05

/3
0/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
13

5 
0.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

05
/3

0/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

06
/0

5/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

06
/1

4/
20

13
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

81
35

 
0.

30
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
9.

19
 

06
/1

4/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

2.
80

 
06

/2
6/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

81
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

06
/2

6/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
31

35
 

0.
40

 
$6

3.
98

 
$2

5.
59

 
06

/2
7/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

13
5 

0.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

9.
19

 
06

/2
7/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

31
35

 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
06

/2
8/

20
 1

3 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 i
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

31
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

06
/2

8/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
31

35
 

0.
70

 
$6

3.
98

 
$4

4.
79

 
07

/0
1/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

13
5 

,3
0 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
9.

19
 

07
/0

2/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
81

35
 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
07

/0
3/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

81
35

 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

07
/0

8/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

60
 

$6
3.

98
 

$3
8.

39
 

07
/2

2/
20

 1
3 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 -

- 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



ol
 

**
* 

C
 O

N
 F

 ID
 E

 N
 T

I A
L

 
Q

ua
lil

y 
A

ss
rn

an
ce

 - 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

12
16

08
7 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
/0

2/
20

 13
 

. 
P

ag
e 

3 
of

 4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

B
13

5 
0.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
.4

0 
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

13
5 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
07

/3
0/

20
5 

76
 

R
E

PO
R

T
 P

R
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 
13

5 
0.

20
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
2.

80
 

07
/3

1/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

PO
R

T
 P

R
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 

13
5 

0.
10

 
$4

6.
35

 
$4

.6
4 

10
/2

9/
20

13
 

6 
SU

PP
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

13
5 

0.
30

 
$4

6.
35

 
$1

3.
91

 
10

12
9/

20
 1

3 
10

0 
SE

R
V

IC
E

 O
F 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

S,
 S

U
B

PO
E

N
A

S,
 N

O
T

IC
E

 T
O

 C
E

A
SE

 

13
5 

0.
20

 
$4

6.
35

 
$9

.2
7 

10
/3

0/
20

13
 

6 
SU

PP
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
 I

N
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

13
.0

0 
$8

19
.3

3 

IP
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 IT

 
I-

IL
L

IO
6A

 
0.

70
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$7
4.

45
 

07
/1

2/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

H
L

L
1O

6A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
07

/1
5/

20
13

 
64

 
L

E
G

A
L

 A
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
SS

IO
N

 - 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
FF

IC
E

,D
E

PT
 S

T
A

FF
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
FF

: 

O
6A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

07
/1

5/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

IO
6A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

07
/1

5/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
FI

L
L

IO
6A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

07
/1

6/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

I0
6A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

07
/1

6/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

I0
6A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

07
/1

6/
20

13
 

36
 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F 

L
E

T
T

E
R

 

IO
6A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

07
/2

2/
20

13
 

11
5 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
 W

IT
H

IN
V

E
ST

IG
A

T
O

R
S 

O
6A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

07
/3

0/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
O

6A
 

0.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

0.
64

 
07

/3
0/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
L

E
PH

O
N

E
C

A
L

L
S 

O
6A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

08
/0

2/
20

13
 

10
3 

R
E

V
IE

W
SU

PP
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

L
R

E
PO

R
T

 
O

6A
 

1.
10

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

16
.9

9 
08

/0
2/

20
 1

3 
28

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

O
6A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

09
/0

6/
20

13
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

L
-I

L
L

IO
6A

 
0.

90
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$9
5.

72
 

09
/1

8/
20

13
 

90
 

PO
ST

 P
R

O
B

A
B

L
E

 C
A

U
SE

 P
R

O
C

E
SS

IN
G

 

FI
L

L
IO

6A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
10

/0
7/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

SE
FI

L
E

 
IL

L
IO

6A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
10

/0
7/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

]E
W

C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 

O
6A

 
0.

10
 

$1
01

.9
5 

$1
0.

20
 

10
/2

8/
20

13
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

5.
10

 
55

41
.9

9 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

ni
iz

ed
co

st
 



C
 O

N
 F

IB
 E

 N
T

 T
A

L
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
08

7 

O
f 

M
ed

ic
al

 O
ua

lil
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

M
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
12

/0
2/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 4

 o
f4

 

S
ta

ll 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

$1
,4

21
.7

1 

I 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

SE
 O

N
L

Y
--

 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 

. 



of
 

**
* 

C
 O

N
 F

 ID
E

 N
 T

I 
A

L
 

M
ed

ic
al

 C
ua

til
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

12
/0

2/
20

 1
3 

P
ag

e 
I 

of
 I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

• DEPARTMENT OF HEALTI{ 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Area I, Pensacola Date of Case: 4/8/13 Case Number: PH 201 2-1 6087 
Subject: 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

Source: 
PRESTON MCDONALD, RPH 
5740 Westrnont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 
(850) 983-0916. 

Prefix: License #: Profession: 
PH 274& PHARMACY 

Board: - Report Date: 
PHARMACY 7/31/13 

Period of Investigation: 7/17/13-7/31/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 1 

Alleged Violation: FS 456.072(1)(k) Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee. (n) 
Exercising influence on the patient or client for the purpose of financial gain (dd) Violating any provision of this chapter, 
FS 465.01 5(2) It is unlawful for any person: (c) To sell or dispense drugs as defined in s. ) without first being 
furnished with a prescription: FS 465.016(1)(i) Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any 
controlled substance, other than in the course of the profeasional practice of pharmacy. (r) Violating any provision of this 
chapter .... and FS 465.023(1) The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy 
permittee, and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline (c) Violated any of the requirements of this chapter 
or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy; 
Synopsis: This supplemental report is predicated upon receipt of a PSU Request Form on 7/17/13 from 
BLONDELL IINSON for AMA GARGOLLO-MCDONALD, Attorney, requesting the 
loraspetic with Lidocaine added, purchased on 3/28/13 be tested for the drug. EXHIBIT SI-I). 

INTERVIEW OF ED HUDSON, : 
Employment: FDLE 
1301 N. Palafox Street 
Pensacola, FL 32501 
(850) 595-2006 

On 7/15/13, Investigator Supervisor CATHY MARTIN contacted HUDSON by telephone to inquire who to 
speak with about testing the evidence in their lab. HUDSON referred Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to 
the FDLE Chemistry Supervisor, JOEY GRAVES. 

- a C) 
INTERVIEW OF JOEY GRAVES. LAB : 
Employment: FDLE . - — 
1301 N. Palafox Street P 
Pensacola, FL 32501 
(850) 595-2077 

), > 
On 7/15/13, Investigator Supervisor MARTIN attempted to telephone GRAVES; however, his voice mail 
message stated he was out and would not return until the following week. 

CONTINUED 
Related Cases: RPT 2012-16092, RPT 2012-16089, P52012-16091, PS 2012-16058, PS 2012-16090, PS 2013-06754 
Investigator/Date: Approved By/Date: 

7/?i/q 
Ben Lanier, Bl-35, Investigator Cathy Martin, Investigator Supervisor (AUG .0 12013 
Distribution: HO/ISU Page 1 

UUNIMQA 
Tallahassee HQ 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT NUMBER: PH 2012-1 6087 

On 7/22/13, Investigator Supervisor CATHY MARTIN contacted GRAVES by telephone and asked about the 
possibility of testing for Lidocaine in the bottle of loraseptic. GRAVES stated Lidocaine was not a controlled 
substance and he therefore would only be able to confirm whether Lidocaine was in the loraseptic, but not 
the quantity. He stated he would need an Originating Agency Identifier (ORI) for intake of the Chioraseptic. 
Investigator Supervisor MARTIN explained DOH was not a law enforcement agency and probably did not have 
an ORI. GRAVES stated he would check and call back. He did so shortly after and stated he confirmed DOH 
did not have an ORI and he therefore could not accept and analyze the loraseptic. GRAVES referred 
Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to NMS labs. 

INTERVIEW OF DANIELLE FARINA, : 
Employment: NMS Labs 
2300 Strattford Ave 
Willengrove, PAl 9090 
(866) 522-2216 

On 7/22/13, Investigator LANIER interviewed FARINA by telephone. FARINA stated they could test 
Chioraseptic for Lidocaine, FARINA stated the lab could simply test for the presence of Lidocaine and the 
testing code was 72101L1., FARINA stated the cost would be $369.00 and the turnaround time was about two 
weeks. FARINA stated the lab could also test for the quantity of Lidocaine in the bottle. FARINA stated the 
cost would be $576.00 and the turnaround time was about three weeks. FARINA stated there would also be a 
fee to return the specimen if it was needed. FARINA stated if the loraseptic was going to be sent to them 
then the proper forms would be need to be filled out which could be found at nmslabs.com. 

INVESTIGATOR'S NOTE: On 7/22/13, Investigator LANIER called the local Quest Diagnostics lab and staff 
informed they only test patients and not evidence. On the same date, Investigator LAMER searched for other 
labs that might offer to test the Lidocaine. Investigator LANIER telephoned Avomeen lab at (800) 930-5450 
and staff informed they do not perform those test regularly, but that it could be done for about $2,500.00. On 
the same date, Investigator LANIER telephoned Central Florida Testing Lab and staff informed that test could 
not be performed in their lab. On the same date, Investigator LANIER attempted to speak with staff at OAS 
lab at (800) 695-7222; however, no one answered the call and a voicemail message was left requesting a 
return call. As of the completion of this report the call was not returned. 

On 7/22/13, Investigator LAMER provided the cost information to PSU and was informed the matter would be 
reviewed and a decision made whether to proceed with the testing. 

On 7/30/1 3, Investigator LANIER followed up with PSU and was informed the testing would not be necessary 
at this time due to the cost. : 

51-1. PSU Request Form (p.3) 

INVFORM 300 7/02 Page 2 



FLORIDA DEPARThffiNT OF 

HEALT 
Department of Heath 

JUL 172013 

• - 
— ISU/Pensacola 

Details: Attorney Ma M. Gargollo-Mcbonald is requesting the Investigator to obtain a requesting for 
the loraseptic that S purchased on March 28, 2013, be tested to find out if any substance, 
chemical, or drug was added. If the investigator has any additional questions concerning this request 
please contact attorney Ana &argollo-Mcbonald at (850) 245-1111 ext. 8133. Thanking you in 
advance, 

Was this case &'jinally worked by CSU or in an area from where this service request is being sent? 
YES Z** No fl NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 
**lF YES. please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
INV FORM 376, Revised I / 12. Il, 6/10, 06/09, /09, 11/08 Created 4/05 

Exhibit. 3 

PSLJ REQUEST FORM 

FROM: Blondell-Heller-Hutchison for 
Ana Gargollo-McDonald, Esq. 

TO: ISU Cathy Martin 

Date: 711712013 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4444 ext 8133 CC: Ben Lanier, Investigator 

Case Number 20 12-16087 
Subject: Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc. 
Requested Completion Date: 811712013 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Board: Pharmacy 
HLCode: HLLIO6A Status: 67 

fl Process Service* (Activity Code 160) . ., 

Z Additional Information Requested (ActivityCode 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I 50) 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request 
Last Known Address: 433 Highway 29 South, Cantonment, Florida 32533 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: (850) 968-2489 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl NoZ; If Yes, When? 

(ISU/CSIJ) RESPONSE: 
fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) 0 Process Service NOT Completed 162) 

Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 
. 



Page 1 of2 

Heller-Hutchison, BlondêIl 

From: Heller-Hutchison, Blondell 

Se'nt: Wednesday, July 17, 2013 3:24 PM 

To: DL MQA Serv Priority Mail Areal (BI) Pensacola 

Cc: Martin, Cathy 8; Lanier, Ben 0; Gargollo-McDonald, Ana 

Subject: Additional Information Request 

Signed By: Blondell_Heller-Hutchison@doh.state.fl.us 

Attachments: Cantoment Pharmacy, lnc.,.(PH, 12-16087) Additional Information Request.doc 

Cathy, 
Please see the attathed additional information request. If you hove any further questions concerns 
concerning this request please contact Attorney Ma M. Gargollo-Mcbonald at (850) 245-1111 
ext. 8133 or myself at (850) 245-1111 ext 8109. 

Thanking you in advance, 

Blondell Heller-Hutchison, MSW, Regulatory Specialist, II 
to Casey L. Cowan & Lauren A. Leikam 

Off ice of the General Counsel 

Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
(850) 245-1111 ext. 8109 
(850) 245-4683 Fax Number: 
blondell heller—hutchison@doh.state.fl.us 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from 
state officials regarding state business are public records available to the public and media upon 
request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial administrative 
proceeding to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this email is an attorney-client 
communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the provisions of 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. See Section 119.071(d)1,, Florida Statutes (2010). 

DOH 

To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county. & 
community efforts. 

Vision statement: Healthiest State in the Nation. 

DOH Values: . 
Innovation; We search for creative solutions and manageresources wisely. 

7/17/20 13 



Page 2 of 2 

Collaboration:We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 

Accountability:We perform integrity & respect. 

Responsiveness:We achieve our mission by serving our customers i engaging our partners. 

Excellence:We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 

Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to learn more. 

7/17/20 13 



FLORmA DEPARFMENT OF 

HEALT 
PSU REQUEST FORM 

Case Number 2012-16087 
Subject: Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc. 
Requested Completion Date: 8/17/20 13 

Details: Attorney Ana M. &argollo-Mcbonald is requesting the Investigator to obtain a requesting for 
the Chloraseptic that was purchased on March 28, 2013, be tested to find out if any substance, 
chemical, or drug was added. If the investigator has any additional questions concerning this request 
please contact attorney Ana &argollo-Mcbonuld at (850) 245-1411 ext. 8133. Thanking you in 

advance, 

Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being sent? 

YES Z** No fl NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 
**IF YES. Dlease send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
NV FORM 376, Revised 1/12. 10/I I. ,4/09, Il/OS Created 4/05 

FROM: Blondell Heller-Hutchison for 
Ana Gargollo-McDonald, Esq. 

TO: ISU Cathy Martin 

Date: 7/17/2013 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4444 ext 8133 CC: Ben Lanier, Investigator 

Board: Pharmacy 
kL Code: HLLIO6A Status: 67 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

fl Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code SO) 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request: 
Last Known Address: 433 Highway 29 South, Cantonment, Florida 32533 
Last Known Name & Phone Number (850) 968-2489 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With Individual? YES NoZ; If Yes, When? 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 

fl Process Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 



PLORWA DEPARFMENT OF 

HEALT 
Email to: Miami 
Pensacola Tallahassee Alachua St. Pete Tampa Orlando Ft. Myers West Palm Ft. 

Consumer 
Services L±Ura 

NV FORM 376, Revised 1/12. /10, 06/09, 4109, 11/08 Created 4/05 



STATE OF 7 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Area I, Pensacola Date of Case: 4/8/13 Case Number: PH 2012-16087 
Subject: 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

Source: 
PRESTON MCDONALD, RPH 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 
(850) 983-0916 

Prefix: License #: Profession: 
PH 2748 PHARMACY 

Board: Report Date: 
PHARMACY 10/29/13 

Period of 113-10/29/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 2 
Alleged Violation: FS 456.072(1)(k) Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee. (n) 
Exercising influence on the patient or client for the purpose of financial gain (dd) Violating any provision of this chapter, 
FS 465.015(2) It is unlawful for any person: (c) To sell or dispense drugs as defined in a. ) without first being 
furnished with a prescription. FS 465.016(1)(i) Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any 
controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy. (r) Violating any provision of this 
chapter ... and FS 465.023(1) The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy 
permittee, and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline (c) Violated any of the requirements of this chapter 
or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy; 
Synopsis: This supplemental report is predicated upon receipt of a PSU Request Form on 10/28/13 from 
BLONDELL HELLER-HUTCHINSON for ANA GARGOLLO-MCDONALD, Attorney, requesting hand service 
of the Administrative Complaint (AC) and related documents to CANTONMENT PHARMACY EXHIBIT - i 
INTERVIEW OF GENE R. LACHNEYI : 
Employment: Cantonment Pharmacy 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

On 10/28/13, Investigator LANIER called CANTONMENT PHARMACY and spoke to LACHNEY. 
Investigator LANIER informed LACHNEY that an AC needed to be served to CANTONMENT PHARMACY. 
On the same date, Investigator LANIER provided the AC and related documents for CANTONMENT 
PHARMACY to LACHNEY at CANTONMENT PHARMACY. LACHNEY stated he would provide the 
pharmay's documentation to JOHN READING, Owner, PDM. An Affidavit of Service is included as Exhibit 
52-2. 

o n 
C) : 

52-1. PSU Request Form with AC and related documents (pp.2-23) i 
S2-2. Affidavit of Service (p. 24) ) ) 

-n 
'.0 r- 

Related Cases: RPT 2012-16092, RPT 2012-16089, PS 2012-16091 • PS 2012-16088, PS 2012-16090, PS 201 3-06754 
Investigator/Date: Approved By/Date: 

/ f 
3 

Ben Lanier, BI-35, Investigator Cathy Màftin, Investigator Supervisor 
Distribution: l-IQ/ISU 1 



Department of Health 

IIEAILT i 28 2013 la 
(JESTFORM. 

FROM: Blondell Heller-Hutchison for Ma 
M. Gargollo-McDonald, Esq. 

TO: ISU Cathy Martin 

Date: 10/28/2013 TO: CSU 

Phone #: (850) 245-4444 ext. 81 33 CC: Ben Lanier, Investigator 

Case Number 2012-16087 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc. HL Code: HLLIO6a 
Requested Completion Date: /28/2013 

(PStJ) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

Q Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I 50) 

Details: Please have the attached Administrative Complaint, Election of Rights and 
Stipulation hand served. The respondent's mail is being returned "attempt not 
known". If the Subject cannot be located, please have a supplemental prepared within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of this memo along with an affidavit of diligent 
service/search. Please check the licensure screen as well for hand service, Please 
complete an Accurint check on this respondent if she cannot be located at the 
address above. Please state in the affidavit the type of method you used to identify 
the respondent. Thanking you in advance 

"<The following additional information is needed for each service request: 
Last Known Address: 433 Highway 29 South, Cantonment, Florida 32533 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: (850) 968-2489 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES 

INV FORM 376, Revised 1/12. 1, 6/ 0, 06/09,4/09, 11/08 Created 4/05 

Exhibit I 

Status: 87 

If Yes, When? 

Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: . 
(3 

Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) Process Service NOT Completed (Activit5rCod&: 62) 



FLORIDA DEPART MENT OF 

HEALT 
LI Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 

Email to; 
Pensacola Tallahassee Alachua lacksonville St. Pete Tanioa Orlando Ft. Myers West Palm t. Lauderdale Miami 

Consumer 
Services ULA 

INV FORM 376, Revised I / 12. 10/Il 61101 06/09, 4/09, Il/OS Created 4/05 

3 



TO: 

FROM: 

MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: 

MEMBERS: 

Contonment Pharmacy, Inc. (AMM) 
Case Number: 2012-16087 a tffin; PharinD and Jeffrey Mesaros 

DATE OF PCP: September 5, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-iS 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 

investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida statutes (2012), by violating Section 465.015(1)(c), Florida 
Statutes (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other + 

A 

Date 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITION ER, 
v. CASE NO. 2012-16087 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC., 

RESPONDENT. 

____________________________________________I 

SE1TLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Cantonment Pharmacy, 

Inc., was a permitted pharmacy within the State of Florida, having been 

issued license number PH 2748. Respondent's mailing address of record 

is 433 Highway 29 South, Cantonment, Florida 32533. 

DOH V. CANTONMENT PHRAMACY, INC. 
CASE NUMBER: 2012-16087 1 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

3. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

4. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSiTION 

5. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

6. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00). The fine shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, I V. CANTONMENT PHRAMACY, INC. 
CASE NUMBER: 2012-16087 2 



Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final Order) is 

filed with the Department Clerk. 

7. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND TWO 

HUNDRED AND FORTYPIVE DOLLARS ($2,245.00). Total costs shall 

be assessed when the Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. 

The costs shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the 

Final Order is filed with the Department Clerk. 

8. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

9. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

DOH V. CANTONMENT PHR.AMACY, INC. 
CASE NUMBER: 2012-16087 3 



a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

10. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

11. PurDose of Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

DQH V. CANTONMENT IIRAMACY, INC. 
CASE NUMBER: 2012-16087 4 



the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

12. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

13. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

14. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

15. Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

DOH V. CANTONMENT PHRAMACV, INC. 
CASE NUMBER: 2012-16087 



WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this I 

matter. 

SIGNED 

V 

NO. 2012-16087 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared 
or by — 

nd who, under 
appears above. 

.CR , 

(type of 
oath, acknowledges that his signature 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 2013. 

My Commission number: 

My Commission Expires: 

IN V. FENN 

A Commission # EE 855488 
Expires March 31, 2017 
Based tvu Tray Fã' 8W385.7019 

i V. CANTONMENT PHR.AMACY, INC. 
CASE NUMBER: 2012-16087 6 

day of 

7 

2013. S 



APPROVED this day of 

_____________________ 

2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

Ana M. Gargollo-McDonald 
Assistant General Counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Ana M. Gargouo-McDonald 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOM Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Fla. Bar No. 0085907 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 Ext. 8133 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
ana_gargollo-mcdonald©doh.state.fl.us 

DOH V. CANTONMENT PHRAMACV, INC. 

CASE 2012-16087 7 



STATE OF.FLORIDA t 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH U J 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Area I, Pensacola Date of tase: 4/8/13 .1 Case Number: PH 2012-16087 
Subject: 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY, INC . 

433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

Source: 
PRESTON MCDONALD, RPH 
5740 Westmont Road• 
Milton, FL 32583 
(850) 953-0916 

Prefix: License #: Profession: 
PH 2748 PHARMACY 

Board: Report Date: - 

PHARMACY 7/8/13 
Period of Investigation: 4/17/13-7/8/13 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: FS 456.D72(1)(k) Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee. (n) 
Exercising influence on the patient or client for the purpose of financial gain (dd) Violating any provision of this chapter, 
FS 465.015(2) It is unlawful for any person: (c) To sell or dispense drugs as defined in s. ) without first being 
furnished with a prescription. ES 465.016(1)(i) Compounding. dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any 
controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy. (r) Violating any provision of this 
chapter and FS 465.023(1) The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy 
permittee, and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline (c) Violated any of the requirements of this chapter 
or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy; 
Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint (Case Summary and Attachments) 
EXHIBIT ) submitted by MCDONALD in regard to CANTONMENT PHARMACY. MCDONALD, a former 
pharmacist at CANTONMENT PHARMACY, alleged staff there are dispensing prescription medications 
without a prescription including antibiotics, erectile dysfunction oral tablets (Viagra), albuterol inhalers, and 
possibly non-controlled medications. Allegedly customers come to the pharmacy on a daily basis to 
purchase Penicillin, Arnoxicillin, lagyl, Diflucan, and cough syrup with codeine without a prescription.from a 
physician. On 2/4/13, a Pensacola investigator went to CANTONMENT PHARMACY and purchased a "Z- 
Pak" (six Azithromycin 250mg tablets, prescription only medication) and 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine 
Hydrochloride 6Omg/Tripolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets. On 3/28/13, another Pensacola ISU staff 
member went to the pharmacy and purchased Chloraseptic with Lidocaine added (which requires a 
prescription) and 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6Omg/Tripolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) 
tablets. The pharmacist was not identified on 2/4/13 or 3/28/13. 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY was notified of the investigation by letter dated 4/17/13 EXHIBIT ) and was 
provided a copy of the Case Summary and originating documents from Exhibit 1. 

of DOH computer Hcensure records revealed CANTONMENT PHARMACY is currently licensed as 
a PHARMACY. 

No patients were identified; therefore, patient notification was not required. 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY is not known to be represented by an attorney in this matter. 

On 5/21/13 by US mail, Investigator LAMER received a statement from JOHN T. READING JR an behalf of 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY EXHIBIT . On behalf of CANTONMENT PHARMACY, READING denied 
the allegations. 

Related Cases: RPT 2012-16092, RPT 2012-16089, PS 2012-16091, Ps 2012-16088, PS 2012-16090, PS 
Investi tor/Date: Approved By/Date: 

Ben Lanier, 61-35, Investigator 0 9 2013 Martin, Investigator Supervisor 
Distribution: HO/ISU Page 1 

II CØNFIDEN?IAL 





DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-16087 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

On 2/4/13, Investigator LANIER drove to Cantonment Pharmady. Upon entering the pharmacy, "EMILY" the 
cashier asked how she could help. Investigator LANIER stated he had a sinus infection and EMILY told 
Investigator LANIER to go to the pharmacy consultation window. Investigator LANIER walked to the 
consultation window and a man, without a name tag, presumably the pharmacist, with short brown hair and a 
goatee asked how he could help. Investigator LANIER told him that he héd a sinus infection and a swollen 
throat. Investigator LANIER told him that a friend of his had the same thing recently and a Z-pak seemed to 
help. The pharmacist asked if Investigator LANIER wanted a Z-pak and Investigator LANIER told him yes. 
The pharmacist asked if Investigator LANIER was taking any kind of Antihistamine ahd Investigator LANIER 
told him no. The pharmacist told Investigator LANIER to also purchase an Antihistamine to clear up his 
sinuses. Investigator LAMER told him that funds were limited and the man said it would be roughly $31.00 in 
total. There was no counseling offered on how to take either.the Z-pak or Antihistamine. EMILY assisted 
Investigator LAMER check out and asked for Investigator LANIER's driver's license. EMILY wrote down 
Investigator LANIER's name, address, and driver's license number in a book. Then Investigator LANIER 
signed the log and left the pharmacy. While in the pharmacy Investigator LAMER did not see a sign offering 
the sale of Viagra. A "Z-pak" (six Azithromycin 250mg tablets; prescription only medication) and 24 Aprodine 
(Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6Omg/Triprolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets were provided by the 
pharmacist. 

On 3128/13, Investigator Supervisor CATHY MARTIN presented to Cantonment Pharmacy with complaints of 
lingering cough and sore throat. The cashier immediately instructed Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to go the 
pharmacy window. A man with short brown hair and a goatee, presumably the pharmacist but with no name 
tag, asked what symptoms were present. The symptoms were repeated to the pharmacist, and he instructed 
Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to select a bottle of ChEoraseptic. He stated, with a wink, that he would add 
an ingredient to relieve the , He asked if Investigator Supervisor MARTIN was taking any 
decongestants, and Investigator Supervisor MARTIN responded no. He asked no other questions. A 
selection of the orange flavored Chioraseptic was made and Investigator MARTIN returned to the pharmacy 
window. The pharmacist stated that the orange flavor was not very good and to go back and get the red 
bottle, Investigator MARTIN did so. The pharmacist took the bottle, and a few minutes later he passed a 
white paper bag with contents to the cashier. The pharmacist stated that he added Lidocaine to the 
Chloraseptic. The cashier instructed Investigator MARTIN to approach the counter and provide a driver 
license. Investigator Supervisor MARTIN did so, and the cashier copied information from the driver license to 
a worn green ledger. The cashier then instructed Investigator Supervisor MARTIN to enter address 
information in the log and sign where indicated. Investigator MARTIN did so. During this process, Investigator 
MARTIN asked what the purpose of the log was, and the cashier stated it was for the Sudafed pills being 
provided. Investigator MARTIN also asked for the pharmacists name, and the cashier provided a first name 
of"Gene," She informed the total was $11.10, and Investigator Supervisor MARTIN provided the cashier a 
$50 bill. Change of $38.90 was provided, and Investigator Supervisor MARTIN thanked the cashier and the 
pharmacist and left. The cost of the loraseptic was $5.12. and a blue bottle with 24 small white pills was 
also provided for a cost of $5.98. No prescriptions were presented to the pharmacy, and no instructions for 
taking the medications were provided. Chiaraseptic with Lidocaine added (which requires a prescription) and 
24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride 6orng/Triprolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets were provided 
by the pharmacist. The pharmacist was not identified on 2/4/13 or 3/28/1 3. 

Thirteen pictures of these medications and receipts from both purchases are provided on CD and included as 
EXHIBIT B. 

/o2 ... Pane 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-16087 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT I is information forwarded by the Consumer Services Unit (CSU) with the complaint. This information consists of a Case Summary, corrected Case Summary, complaint form by MCDONALD, and the following: 
Complaint narrative by MCDONALD noting he was previously employed at Winn-Dixie pharmacy located nearby CANTONMENT PHARMACY. While at work on many occasions, he would have customers ask if he could sell them antibiotics. It was explained to them that a prescription was required, and their response was always that they could obtain them from CANTONMENT 
PHARMACY. MCPONALD did not believe the customers for the most part, contributing it to CANTONMENT PHARMACY selling something to the customers and telling them it worked almost as good as antibiotics. Through diverging circumstances, MCDONALD became eniployéd at 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY as a pharmacist, The very first day at work not long after they opened, a customer same up and asked him for antibiotics. MCDONALD told the customer that he had to have a prescription for antibiotics. Throughout the day about six different customers asked him for antibiotics and without fail, every day to this date, they had customers telling him they had purchased antibiotics in the past from one registered pharmacy technician (RPTI) or sometimes another registered pharmacy 
technician (RPT2) was mentioned, and that they would like to purchase some more. MCDONALD 
refused and always told the customers that a prescription was required. Antibiotics mentioned to MCDONALD that customers had purchased in the past included Penicillin, Amoxicillin, Z-Pak, Keflex, Flagyl, and Diflucan. As corroborating evidence of this practice of selling antibiotics without a prescription to customers, there are large bottles of Penicillin, Amoxicillin, and SMZ-TMP on a counter near the counseling window, which is outside of the area of stock of all other medications, and separate from its normal location (for filling prescriptions). 

MCDONALD also had several male customers ask to purchase Viagra tablets, stating that they had bought them in the past from RPT1 or sometimes RPT2 and wanted some more. MCDONALD refused and always told the customers a prescription was required. MCDONALD stated there are handwritten signs above/below the Viagra tablets on the prescription stock area of "$24" which indicated that customers are charged $24.00 for each Viagra tablet (sold without a prescription). MCDONALD also had a customer come to the counseling window and ask him for an Albuterol inhaler. After MCDQNALD explained that a prescriptibri was needed, the customer stated that he had purchased them before from RPT1 and RPT2, and he became irate that MCDONALD would not sell him an Albuterol inhaler. 

Finally, MCDONALD alleged there is a well-known practice in the community that. CANTONMENT 
PHARMACY sells a syrup" that is mixed at the pharmacy which contains codeine. This is a C-V medication that can be legally sold without a prescription, but it can only be sold by a pharmacist. 
MCDONALD had several customers tell him they wanted that special "cough syrup" they got from or RPT2 in the past. MCDONALD witnessed it being sold to customers by a clerk without consultation of the pharmacist on duty. MCDONALD stated it was a common practice for RPT1 to give medical advice to customers and otherwise infer to customers that he was a licensed pharmacist, and to also sell them prescription medications without a prescription. This was also the case for RPT2, although to a lesser extent. 

MCDONALD listed the licensed employees of the pharmacy who were allegedly guilty of dispensing 
medications without a prescription. These employees allowed RPTI to portray himself as a licensed 

INV FORM 300 7102 Pace 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-16087 

practitioner prescriber or pharmacist. This technician was allowed to perform Øuties only allowed by 
law to be performed by a licensed practitioner prescriber or pharmacist such as 1) diagnosing patients 
and prescribing prescription medications by virtue of selling the prescription medications to customers 
without a valid prescription, 2) giving medical advice to customers without consultation of a licensed 
pharmacist, 3) holding himself as a pharmacist, 4) acting/speaking as a pharmacist over the telephone 
to other pharmacists in the transfer of prescriptions, without identifying himself as a pharmacy 
technician, 5) indMdually selllng C-V medications (i.e., cough syrup with codeine) to customers without 
involvement, consultation, and approval of a pharmacist. MCDONALD noted that the primary principal 
or violator was RPT1, who had for many years acted as a pharmacist and performed pharmacist-only 

The owner of the pharmacy is listed as the pharmacist-in-charge, who has a legal responsibility 
in developing and enforcing policies and procedures for the pharmacy. It is extremely difficult to 
believe that the owner, although absent from the day to day operations of the pharmacy, is not aware 
of the violations occurring on a dafly basis. The two most recent pharmacists employed by the 
pharmacy are also participants in these violations by virtue of allowing them to occur while on duty and 
failing to report them. MCDONALD did not know if those two pharmacists were guilty of selling 
medications that require a prescription without one, or just knowingly allowed such. MCDONALD 
stated the pharmacy technicians were not identifying themselves when answering or speaking on the 
phone and did not regularly wear name tags/badges that readily identify themselves as pharmacy 
technicians. MCDONALD stated the pharmacy is also in violation by not having an easily accessible 
sink near the prescription counter. 

EXHIBIT 3 is a copy of a letter dated 1 13 to MCDONALD informing him of the status of the case. 

EXHIBIT 4 is a copy of a letter dated 5/16/13 to CANTONMENT PHARMACY providing a corrected Case 
Summary. The original Case Summary made two references to Hydrocodone which should have read 
Hydrochloride. 

EXHIBIT 5 is copies of three inspection forms dated 9/22/09, 10118/10, and 1/23/12 for inspections 
conducted at CANTONMENT PHARMACY printed by Investigator LANIER on 4/18/13. The three previous 
inspections indicate passing results; however, the inspection form dated 9/22/09 indicated there were some 
improperly labeled medications found. 

EXHIBIT 6 is a copy of thirteen pictures placed on CD by Investigator LANIER. The pictures are of 
prescription medications purchased from CANTONMENT PHARMACY by Pensacola ISU staff on 2/4/13 and 
3/28/13, and the respective receipts, dispensed without providing a prescription. The medications consist of a 
"Z-pak" (six Azithromycin 250mg 1 prescription only medication), 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine 
Hydrochloride 6omglTriprolidine Hydrochloride 2.5mg) tablets, Chioraseptic with Lidocaine added (which 
requires a prescription), and 24 Aprodine (Pseudoephedrine Hydrochloride lidine Hydrochloride 
2.5mg) tablets. 

EXHIBIT 7 is a copy of the formula for the "Cantonment Wine' provided by 
126/13 to Investigator LANIER at the Pensacola ISU office. 

NV FORM 300 7/02 Page 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 

INTERVIEW OF PRESTON MCDONALD. RPH (PS : 
Address of Record: 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 
(850) 983-0916 

On 11/26/12, Investigator LANIER interviewed MCDONALD by telephone. MCDONIALD state6 he quit 
working at CANTONMENT PHARMACY close to a month prior. MCDONALD stated the pharmacy did not 
keep a record of the medications that customers were buying. MCDONALQ stated the cough syrup did not 
contain full strength codeine and it did not require a prescription, but a pharmacist had to be involved. 
MCDONALD stated Registered Pharmacy Technicians were also providing the cough syrup to customers. 
MCDONALD stated h,e could not specifically remember any patient names to whom prescription medications 
were sold. 

INTERVIEW OF - - - 
Address of Record: 

Employment: Cantonment Pharmacy 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

NV FORM 300 7/02 Pane 6 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE PH 2012-16087 

INVFORM 300 7 



l INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
. CASE NUMBER: PH 201246087 

. . 

INTERVIEW OF SUSAN HALFEN. RPH (PS : 
Employment: Winn-Dixie 
1550 Hwy 29 North 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-3318 

On 5110113 and 5/14113, Investigator LAMER attempted to telephone HALFEN; however, she was not 
available and voicemail messages were left requesting a return call. 

On 5/15/13, HALFEN returned the call and left a voicemail message for Investigator LAMER stating she was 
working all day on this date, but that she should be available for Investigator LAMER to calL On the same date, 
Investigator LANIER returned the call. HALFEN stated she had been a pharmacist at Winn-Dixie for about six 
years and that their location was very close to CANTONMENT PHARMACY. HALFEN stated that since she 
started working at Winn-Dixie pharmacy, one to two customers come in every month or so to try and get 
prescription medications without a prescription. HALFEN stated these customers were mainly seeking antibiotics 
and told her that they had gotten them In the past without a prescription from CANTONMENT PHARMACY. 
HALFEN stated she also knew CANTONMENT PHARMACY provided.a cough syrup. HALFEN stated she knew 
pharmacists were allowed to sell the cough syrup. HALFEN stated that was all she really knew about 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY's operation. - 

INVFORM 300 7/02 PageS 



DOK INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-16087 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF JOHN T. READING. JR., ON BEHALF OF CANTONMENT PHARMACY, . : 
Address of Record: 
433 Highway 29 South 
Cantonment, FL 32533 
(850) 968-2489 

On 5/17113, Investigator LAMER interviewed JOHN T. READING by telephone. Investigator LANIER asked 
READING who would be responding on behalf of the pharmacy and READING stated he would provide a 
response for the pharrnady in the near 

On 5/21/13 by US mail, Investigator LANIER received READING statement on behalf of CANTONMENt 
PHARMACY. READING stated this letter came as a result of the telephone conversation last week. READING 
stated he would go through the complaint in the same order that MCDONALD had written it. 

FS (dd), FS 465.016 (1)(i)(r), and FS 465.023 (1)(c) all pertain to dispensing without a legitimate 
prescription. The allegations were denied to each with the exception that for 45 years they have sold many 
antibiotics for animals (almost exclusively Penicillin injections) and generic Septra DS tablets for horses. 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY carries a fairly extensive line of almost everything one would need for animals and 
there is a veterinarian across the street that calls in prescriptions to them (INVESTIGATOR'S NOTE: On 7/2/13, 
investigator LANIER spoke with Senior Pharmacist JOHN TAYLOR, who informed that a pharmacist could fill a 
prescription for an animal if they wanted to, but that a prescription was still required. Any medication that would 
be required for a human would still be required for an animal.] 

READING stated that on 2/4/13, he did not believe he was working at the pharmacy and therefore must claim 
that he is without knowledge of what went on. On 3/28113, READING was able to establish that he was definitely 
not working as that was a long weekend off for him. READING typically works every day until 1:00pm and he is 
off every other Thursday through Sunday. READING could not say what happened on that date. One of the 
allegations is that 24 Aprodine were sold to an ISU Investigator and the allegation is that the formula is 
Pseudoephedrine Hydrocodone 60 mgm and Triprolidine Hydrochloride 2.5 mgm. For sinus decongestant, 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY sells almost exclusively Aprodine; however, it is always signed for and it has 
absolutely no Hydrocodone in it. READING stated that if someone wanted to examine their signature log, they 
would find that the ISU investigator did sign for it as the law required. READING stated the Hydrocodone listed 
as an ingredient was probably a typographical error in the Case Summary. Everyone at CANTONMENT 
PHARMACY is periodically tested on the amountof Pseudoephedrine that could be sold at a time and they have 
never exceeded that quantity. 

If a Z-Pak was sold, READING had no knowledge of it, and after questioning, he was no further to answering the 
question. In regard to the purchase of loraseptic with Lidocaine, loraseptic is one of theft most 
recommended products. They do not suggest adding anything to it, but frequently suggest getting an item from 
the grocery store to reduce any swelling that is apparent in their throat. That item is artificial lemon juice and is a 
standard, well known in the "home remedies" book of most pharmacies. Variations of that theme also include a 
shot of whiskey and/or a shot of honey. The pharmacy recommends neither of them as they lieve that the 
benefits accrued from the astringent quality of the juice and anything else would dilute that quality. Digging in to 
the matter, READING was more successful as noted in the answer of another response. Apparently 
MCDONALD was present that day and their Lidocaine viscous is stored appropriately in the back and at the 

INV FORM 300 7/02 Page 9 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2012-16087 

bottom of their antibiotic section. READING stated that he had already determined that he was not there on the 
particular date and perhaps his answer should have just been a simple denial, or without knowledge." 

READING stated no pharmacist ever worked directly with MCDONALD; however, both pharmacy technicians 
worked quite a bit with MCDONALD, and both deny his allegations. If something as alleged had occurred, it 
would have been in relatively tight quarters with MCDONALD and so MCDONALD should have stopped anything 
like he said. When MCDONALD was working for CANTONMENT PHARMACY and people came to the 
counseling window, MCDONALD 'as almost always called over to be introduced to the patient and be invplved 
with any discussions. 

Every employee, not just technicians and pharmacists, is checked for name tags every day that READING is 
present. READING stated that over the past inspections, they have never been citied for fadure to wear a name 
tag and only on one occasion have they been asked to do something additional to the prescription files. No 
inspector has ever said anything about the location of the sink in the prescription department. Leading to it is a 
doorway that is always open and they have a large opening that the data entry person can look through and see 
the sink. 

Allegations of selling Viagra are probably confused with other pills that they sell a great number of that do not 
require a prescription. They are not reØtesented as Viagra but they are blue capsules. The name is Orexis and 
they order them from Amazon.com. They are very popular and are more expensive each time the pharmacy 
buys them. The pharmacy has other tablets that are generally referred to as "nature pills, for men." They sell a 
great deal more of them than the Orexis. They have two versions, one is called Bomba and the other is called 
Bomba-365. None of them require a prescription, but they keep them behind the counter as the men coming to 
the counseling window do not generally wish for the ladies in the store to know what they are purchasing. The 
product is placed in a sack with the price on it and the customer takes it to the cash register. 

Antibiotic bottles that are kept near the ordering computer and not in the regular section are usually items that 
they are shopping their suppliers on prices for and usually contain only a few tablets. Two examples are 
Penicillin and Doxycycline, which have had huge price increases this year. Controlling inventory is key to 
correct market pricing of prescriptions. 

MCDONALD made one allegation of a single request from a customer for an Albuterol inhaler saying that he 
bought it from the pharmacy in the past without a prescription. Albuterol inhalers were taken off the market 
about two years ago and replaced with three much more expensive alternatives. Because older generic 
albuterol was taken off the market, READING did not know what to say other than it was likely that someone 
might have asked for an Albuterol inhaler. Many if not most of their customers come in and ask for their 
medications by narrie and if they know their Rx numbers they usually call them in so that the medications will 
be ready when they come into the pharmacy. 

The pharmacy does have a cough syrup that they make up and have sold for years which does contain 
codeine and every sale is recorded, It is a combination of generic Robitussin AC mixed with plain over the 
counter generic Benadryl. When they mix this they are diluting the legal codeine concentration of the cough 
syrup. The cough syrup is labeled appropriately and they do not make it more than one or two liters at a time 
depending on whether it is cold and allergy season. The pharmacy had a manufacturing license and found 
that they did not sell enough of anything to justify the license and so they do not make more than one or two 

]NV FORM 300 7/02 Page 10 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH .16087 

days' supply at a time. The lot number and expiration date is put on the label according to which ingredient 
has the Oodaine in IL 

MCDONALD stated that he did not know if the other pharmacists violated any statutes but he had thrown 
in for good measure. MCDONALD focused on I and RPT2 because almost everyone knows their names 
and calls them by name, as they call their customers by name. RFT 1 has been at CANTONMENT 
PHARMACY for over 40 years. - 

(INVESTIGATOR'S NOTE: On 6/26/13, Investigator LANIER interviewed READING by , READIN.G 
he was closing CANTONMENT PHARMACY on 7/8113, fot good] 

NV FORM 300 /02 Page i 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
To protect, promote & inprove the health 
of aH people in Flodda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Preston E. McDonald, RPH 
5740 Westmont Road 
Milton, FL 32583 

April 17, 2013 

Dear Mr. McDonald: 

Reference Number: PH 201 2-16087 
Subject: Cantonment Pharmacy Inc. 

Please be advised that the Investigative Services Unit is conducting an investigation on Cantonment 
Pharmacy Inc., and I am the investigator assigned to your case. 

Florida law requires that all information in a complaint remain confidential until 10 days after probable 
cause is found. Patient names and records are never released to the public. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in 

Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. If you have any questions, please call 
me at (850) 475-5470. In addition, if you have any concerns or suggestions about our complaint 
process, please fill-out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions form at 

Sincerely, 

Ben Lanier 
Investigator 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance• Investigatve Services Unit - Pensacola 

5016 North Davis Hvq Pensacola, FL 32503 
PHONE: 8501475-5474 

Exhibit 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

FACE BOOK:FLDepartmentofl-iealth 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
P0./TINE 1WIGE O NEW OJPRENTLY 101 fl CIWIGE OMIER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY- CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note: If establishment is engaged in parenleratrenterel compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection form should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
2748 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/2009 

DOING BUSINESS AS OEA NUMBER 
AC5573767 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

JOHN TREADING STREET ADDRESS 
433 HIGHWAY 29 5 

TELEPHONE *1 EXT. 
850-968-2489 

CITY COUNTY 
CANTONMENT 27 

STATE/ZIP 
32533-1401 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE *1 

10065 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIMJ LICENSE *1 

Monday I Tuesday Wednesdayl Thursday I Friday Saturday I Sunday 
Open 

I 
9am 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am closed 

1. BenjamIn Fenn PS 13028 

2.Johnny Reading PTech 
Close 

I 
6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 3pm 3. Karen Bonanno PTech 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Current pharmacy permit displayed. (465.01 5(lXa),F.S.] 26 All medIcinal drug Rx's require date dispensed. ] Z U 
2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current Ax department U manager. (465.018,F.S.] 

27 Prescription records identfy the responsible dispensing pharmacists. U .A.C.] 
3 Current DEA registration. (2ICFR 1301.11] (465.023(lXc),F.S.] 28 Complete pharmacyprescription records. 64816-28.14D,F.A.C4 U 
4 Ri department hours open for business are posted and are a minimum C of 40 hours per week. (64516-28.404, F.A.C.] 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (6491 6-27.800.F.A.C.) 

5 Interns properly registered and supervised. (465.013,F.S.] .C.) 30 Controlled substance records readily retrievable. (893.07.F.5j Ej 
6 Pharmacy technidans property Identified and supervised. 10F.A.C.] 31 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance ftc. 

893.04fl)(c)6,F.S.3 
7 Proper pharmadst technician ratio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 

Board of Pharmacy approval. (64B16-27.4103 (64816-27.420, F.A.C.] 
32 Prescriber's nan,e/address/DEA *1 on all controlled substance ftc. C 

8 Pharmadst license/renewal certificate displayed. C 64816-27.100(1)F.A.C.) 
Patents name/address on controlled substance i. 
(893.04(1)(c)1,F.S.] C 

9 Pharmscistondutywhen Pidepaitmentopen, 16-28.109,F.A.C. Z C 34 Date controlled substance ftc was filled on Ax, 
(893.04(1)(c)6,F.S.] Z C 

10 Generic drug aign displayed. (465.025(7).F.S.] Z C 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed, z i quantity and directions for use. (893.04(lgc)4,F.S.] 
11 Sign dtrptayed 'Rx Dept Closed" If establishment is open and Ax C Department closed, (64B16-28.109(1),F.A.C.] 

36 Date of refills written on controlled substance ftc or on computer reccrds. 
(893.04(1)(c)6F.S.] C 

12 Sign with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour), and 
stating that a pharmacist Is available on premises for consultation upon C C request. (84916-27.400(6),F.A.C.]' 

37 PharmacIst's initals on controlled substance Ri refills. 
(d93.04(1 c)6,F,Sj Z C 

13 Sign designating the private patient consultation area 
16-2B.1035,F.A.Cj 

38 Controlled substance refills Itmited to 5 within 6 months from date 
prescription was signed, 893.04(IXg).F.S.I Z C 

14 Adequate written end verbal cffer to counsel patients. 
(64B16-27.82O,FAC,] 

39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available z C for Inspection. B93.07(lXa),F.S.] 
15 Adequate patient counseling by pharmacist when offer is accepted. C 6481 6-27.820,F.A.C.] 40 DEA 222 order forms property completed. (693.D7(2),F.S3 Z C 

41' Controlled substance ftc information in computer system is retrievable. z C (CFR 13c6.22] (693.07,F.S] (64B16-28.140,F.&C.] 

16 Ri dept. has sinldrunntng water convenient to Rx dept C (64616-28.102,F.A.C.] 
17 Presmiplion department has drug refrigeration storage. 

64B16-25.104.F.A.C.] 
42 Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. z C (CFR 1304.04 81306.22] (893.07(4Xb).F.S.1 

16 Prescription department clean and safe. 64B16-28.105.F.A.C.] 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. 693.08(3)(a),F.S.] Z C 
19 Ax balance and weights or electronic balance; counting tray or other 

suitable counting device; assorenenc of gmduates/spatutas/mo,tar and C pestles. (6481 6-28.107(2)(a-d),F.&C.] 

44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. C Z C (84916-29140(3)(c) OR (e).F.A.C.] 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in C a readily available electronic data format (64816-28.107(1), F.A.C.] 45 Registered pharmadst property prescribing. 64B16-27.21D,F.A,C.] Z C C 
21 MedIcation property labeled 64B16-27.IDI,F.A.C.] 46 Compounding records property maintained 64516-28.140(4),F.A.Cj C Ci 
22 All Rxmedtcalion within the i department. (64916-28.120(1).F.A.C.j Z C 47 Unit dose records properly maIntaIned (64816-27,410 (1), F.A.C.] * El 
23 COl Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings 

(protected under (766.1O1,F.S.] (64916-27.300. F.A.C.] 
24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active Z C (64816-28.110, F.A.C.] . Questions with may bo answered n/a (not applicable). 
25 Discard on Rx label, (64B16-28.402(t)(h).FAC.] Z C 
Remarks: MissyShores PTech. *3 DEAexpires8-31-2O11. #5NA. #lTech ratioletter6-22-1994. #21 Two bottlesof OTCdnJgin pharmacystookwithoutexpirationdate, #23Last 

CQI meeting 9-15-2009. #39 CS inventory 5-1-2009. #44 Logbook. ftc drug purchases from Smith Drug, AmerisouroeBergen, Masters, & Top i. 
I have read and have had this inspection repcrt and the laws and regutafions conremed herein explained, and do affinii that the information hereia '5 true and cotrect to the best of my knotviedge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Benjamin Fenn, RPh 

Exhib I 

File 1* 498 

Insp# 86062 

PL.ORIDA 

Institutional Representative 
11W 359 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

09-22-2009 
Date /Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ID' ci2tJ 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

ROUTINE CIWIGE LCC NEW El CURRENTLY NOT OPERAnNG CEtWICE OWNER El I 

WWW. DOH STATE. PLUS 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
NOte: I establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection form should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
2748 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1011812010 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
AC5573767 / 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 
. 

JOHN T READING STREET ADDRESS 
433 HIGHWAY 295 

TELEPHONE 4 I EXT. 
850-968-2489 

I 

CITY COUNTY 
CANTONMENT 27 

STATEJZIP 
32533-1401 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE 4 
10065 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 4 

I 
Monday I Tuesday Wednesdayl Thursday Friday 

I 
Saturday 

J 

Sunday 
Open 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am closed 
Close 6pm 6pm 

I 
6pm 6pm 6pm 3pm 

1. Benjamin Fenn PS 13028 

2.WiItOn Glover PS 7751 

3. MelIssa Shores RPT 21008 
SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

1 Current pharmacy permit displayed. 465.015(lXa).F.S.] 26 All medicinal drug Ric's require date dispensed. 
El 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified In writing of current department 
manager. 465.O18F.5.) 

27 Prescription records identity the responsible dispensing pharmacists. 
-28.140(3gb)7,F.A,C.] 

3 Current DEA registration. 2ICFR 1301.11] 465.023(1)(c).F.S.] 28 Complete pharn,acyprescjipton records. (64916-28.t4D,F,A.C.] El 
4 dePartment hours open for business are posted and are a minimum 

of 40 hours per week. 64Bl6-28.404. /IC.) 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. t64Bl6-27.800,F.A.C.] El 
5 Intems properly registered and supervIsed. (4650l3,F.S,] 

El (6461 6-26.400(4),F.A.C.] 30 Controlled substance records readily reMovable. 893.07,F.S.] El 
6 Pharnracy technicians property identified and supervised. ,] 31 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance tc. 

(893.04(l)(c)6.FS.] El 
7 Proper pharmacist technician ratio. If :1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 

Board of Pharmacy approval. 54816-27.410] (64916-27.420, F/IC.] 
32 Prescrlbers l 4 on all controlled substance Pa. 

El 
8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. 

64B16-27.l00(1)F.A.C.) 
33 PatIents name/address on controlled substance Pa. 

893.04(lXc)1,F.S,] Z El 
9 Pharmacist on duty when Rxdepartmentopen. (64B16-28.109F.A.C. El 34 Date controlled substance Pa was filled on Pa. 

(893.04(lXc)6.F.S.] Z El 
10 Generic drug sign displayed. (465.025(7),F.SJ Z El 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have; drug prescribed. 

quantity and directions for use. 893.O4(1)(c)4F.Sj El 
11 Sign displayed 'Pa Dept ' if establishment is open and Pt 

Department ciosed. (64B16-28.109(1).F.A.C.3 
36 Date of retlis written on controlled substance Pa or on computer records. 

(893.04(1Xc)6,F,S,] Z El 
12 Sign with meat break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour). and 

stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon Z El 0 request. (64B16-27.400(6),F.A.C.r 

37 Pham,acists initials on controlled substance Pa refills. 
(693.04(1 X c)6.F.S ] Z El 

13 SIgn designating the private patient consutaton area 
(64B16-28.1035,F.A.C.] 

38 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 within 6 months from date 
prescription wassigned. (893.04(lXg),F.S.] El 

14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 
64B16-27.820,F.A.C.] 

39 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and avaIlable 
for Inspection, (893.07(lXa),F.S.] El 

15 Adequate patient counseling by pharmacist when offer Is accepted. Z 6461 6-27.820,F.A.C.] 40 DEA 222 order forms property completed. (693.07(2),F.S.] El 
16 Pa dept. has sink/running water convenient to Ps dept. 

64B16-28.102.F.A.C.] 
41 Controlled substance Pa information in computer system is rethevable. 

El z o (CFR 1306.22] 893.O7,F.S] 64616-28.140,F.A.C.]' 
17 Prescription department has drug refrtgeraton storage. z ,F.A.Cj 42 Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. 

(CFR 1304,04 & 1306.22) 893.07(4Xb),F.S.] Z El 
18 Prescrtption department clean and safe. 64616-26.105,F.A.C.] Z El 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. Z El 
19 Pa balance and weights or electronic balance; couning tray or other 

suflable counting device; assortment of graduates/spatulas/mortar and 
pestles. (64816-28.1O7(2Xa-d),F.A.C.] 

44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. o z El (6491 6'26.140(3](c) OR (e),F.A.C.]' 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules in hard copy or in J a readily available electronicdats format 816-28.107(1), F.A.C.] 45 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 54816-27.210,F.A.C.}' El El 
21 Medication properly labeled (64616-27.lOl.F.A.C.] 46 Compounding records properly maintained 64B16-28.140(4),F.A.Cj Z El El 
22 All i medication within the Pa departrnenL (64B16.28.120(l),F.A.C.J Z El 47 Unit dose records properly maintained 64B16-27,410 (1), F.A.c.]' Z El El 
23 CDI Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings Z El (protected under 766.101 P.S.] 64816-27.300. F/IC.] . 

24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. 
El 64816-28.110, F.A.C.] 'Questions with fl maybe answered n/a (not le), 

25 tiscard on Pa label. 164B16-28.402(lXh),F.A.Cj El 
Remarks; Leslie Johnson RPT 21005; John Reading, Jr. RPT 21007. #3 DEA expires 8-31-2011. #5 NA. #7 Tech ratio letter 6-22-1994. 423 Last CDI meeting #39 CS inventory 

#43 Book - OK. #44 Logbook. Pit drug purchases from Smith Dnag-Valdosta and AmerisourceBergen-Orlando. 

a. 
ID 

Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

File 4 498 

Insp# 94915 

OP 

HEALT 

Institutional Representative 
W 359 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

I have read and have had this inspection rtport and the laws and regulathrrs concerned hereia explained. sat do affirm that lie infarmaton given herein is true and correct to the best 01 my tulowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Benjamin Fenn, RPh 

10 

Date 



File # 498 

Insp# 103821 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Joseph Gibson, RPh 

01-23-20 12 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

to ci2O 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
INE IGE NEW CURRENTLY NOT J CIWICE OWNER fl 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

DEPART},mNT 

DON STAT E. FL. US 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
CANTONMENT PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
2748 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
112312012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER 
Ac5573767 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

JOHN TREADING STREET ADDRESS 
433 HIGHWAY 29 5 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 
850-965-2489 

CITY COUNTY 
CANTONMENT 27 

STATE/ZIP 
32533-1401 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
10065 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS - REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. Joseph Gibson PS 26203 

Open 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am 9am closed 2. Benjamin Fenn PS 13028 
Close . 6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 6pm 3pm . 3. Melissa Shores RPT 21008 

SATISFACTORY F-tEA YES 
I Re department hours open 5 days for4O hours perweek. 64016-28.1081, F.A.C.] 

: 
2 Pharmacy technicians properly identIfied and supeMsed. 64316-27.410, F.A.C.] 

S Pharmacist on dutywhen Re departrnentopen. 64B16-28.109. F.A.C.] 

— 
- 

4 465.025(7), F.S.] 64816-26.109(1), F.A.C.](64916-26.1081, F.A.C.] 54516-28.1035, 64B16-27.1001, F.A.C.) 

— 

>< 
5 A verbal and printed offerto counsel is made to the patient or the patient's agent. ). F.A.C.] 

- 

: E 
6 Prescriplon department has convenient sink/nanning water. 64516-28.102(1), F.A,C.] 

7 Prescription department clean and safe. 64816-28.102(4), F.A.C.] : : 

)< 
& Proper eguipmeni and references as required. 64816-28.102(5)(a), F.A.C.J 

9 MedIcation properly labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] 108, F.A.C.] 

— 

10 Expired medications removed horn the shelves. 64816-28.110. F.A.C.I 
- 

: i Cal Policy and Proceduresandquarterly meetings. 768.101, F.S.] 64016-27.300 r.A.C.] 
: 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent tha fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. (485.022(4), F,S.] 
— 

1< 

13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(l)(c) 6, F.S.] 64B16-28.140(3)(b), F.A.CI )< 
14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (64816-27.800, F.A.C.J 

— 
- 

)( 
15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information requIred. 893.04, 1 — 

>( — — 
16 Prescriptions for conhoiled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date 

meet the requirements of 456.42(2), F.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled In excess ofone year orsix months for controls from the date written. P.S.] 64816-27.211, F.A.C.3 
- >< — 

18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis end available lorinspecton. (893.OT(lXa), 1 
: 

19 DEA 222 order forms property conipleted. 893.07, F.S.] 
— 

20 Controlled substance records and Re information in computer system is retrievable. 21CFR 1306.22) (64316-28.140, F.A.C.] 

— 
- 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 465.o22(12)(b), F.S.] 

— - 

K 
22 Cerlified daily log OR prinloul maintained. ICFR 1306.22(b)(3)] 84916-28.140(3)(b), F..A.C.] 

— 
- — 

)< 
— 

- — 
23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or close of business on next business day of teaming of instance. 

Reports include all required information. 465.01 5(3), P.S.] 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all controlled substances is being maintaIned and is being reported to ti-ic sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), F.S.] 465.015, P.S.) 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), F.S.J 

26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
499.0121(14), F.S.] 

27 Reg'stered pharmacist properly prescribing. (64616-27.210. F.A.C.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintained, 64816-27.700, F.A.C.] 

29 Unft dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1)Q), F.S.] (64816-28.118, FAC.] - 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-12.ot2(3Xa)2.. (d). F,A.C.] 

- Note: If establistmient is engaged in parenterat/enteral compounding, a separale inspection form should be completed. 
Remarks: Adam Bass RPT 21001; John Reading RPT 21007; ln Bonano RPT 21006; Leslie Johnson RPT 21005. DEA expires 8-31-2014. #2 Tech ratio letter6-22-1994. #11 

Last Cal meeting 9-1-2011. #12 Future requirement. #18 CS inventory 5-1-2011. #22 Logbook. #23 One incident- Escambia CSO. #24 None since 7-1-2011. 
CII prescripUon file survey(60Rxs): Local Practitioner- 97%; Local Patient- 100%; Pain Therapy - 78%; Non-pain Therapy - 22%. 
No batch compounding. No compounding for practitioner oftico stock. 
io drug suppliers: Smith Drug-Valdosta; AmericansourceBergen-Orlando. 

Institutional Representative 
NV 359 Revised 12/11,10/11, 9f11, 10/10.10/09.8/0612102,12/00 

I have reed and have had this inspection report and the awe and regulations herein eaplained, and do affirm that the information given herein is bua and correct to lie best of my knowledge. I have received a copy of 
the Ucensee Bill cl 



DOH CASE # PH 2012-1 6087 

CANTONMENT PHARMACY 

CD containing 13 pictures of medications 

N 







- 



I. - , - - 4 i_. - - -r - - -i-- •--ce•-.-- 





C
A

N
T

O
N

M
E

N
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 
433 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 29 S

O
U

T
H

 
C

A
N

T
O

N
M

E
N

T
, F

L 32533 
850-968.2489 I 1 

:-M
 

D
iscounts 

S
ubT

otal 
T

ax 
T

otat 

C
A

S
H

 

0.00 
3096 

0.00 
30.96 

40.00 

Item
s 

$9.04 2 

R
eceipt # 

R
egister # 

D
ateT

i m
e: 

T
H

A
N

K
 Y

ou so M
U

C
H

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

E
 

A
N

D
 S

E
E

 U
S

IIIH
 

D
escription 

Q
ty 

N
O

N
 -T

A
X

A
B

LE
 

N
O

N
 -T

A
X

A
 B

L E
 

T
otal 

24.98 
5.98 

95235 

2/4/2013 
5: 38:21 P

M
 







Jr 

r 
r 



otal 



98983 
R

egiste 
D

atelim
e 

3 
5 40 59P

M
 

T
H

A
N

K
 Y

O
U

 S
O

 M
U

C
i A

N
D

 C
O

M
E

 
B

A
C

K
 

S
E
E
U
S
P
'
 

PR
E

SC
R

IPT
IO

N
S 

SA
V

F 
O

R
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

 

D
A

T
E

_ 
F

O
R

 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 

D
O

C
T

O
R

 

A
x N

o 

R
xN

o 

R
xN

o 

A
x N

o. 

P
H

A
R

M
. 

_ 
T

hank Y
ou 

T
O

T
A

L
 .
 

C
A

N
T

O
N

M
E

N
T

 P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 

433 
29 S

O
U

T
H

 
C

A
N

T
O

N
M

E
N

T
F

L 32533 
850-988-2489 

D
escriP

tion 
S

F
 

N
O

N
-T

A
X

A
B

LE
 

H
ealth 

D
iscounts 

S
ubT

ota' 
T

ax 
T

otal 

C
A

S
H

 

W
zce 

PH
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

I 

C
hange D

ue 
Item

s 
$38.90 2 



6floz(177$). 



PR
E

SC
R

IPT
IO

N
S 

SA
V

E
 FO

R
 T

A
J( O

R
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

 

F
O

R
 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 

D
O

C
T

O
R

 

flxN
o.__ 

P
H

A
R

M
 

T
A

X
 

T
hank Y

ou 
T

O
T

A
L

 

P
H

A
R

M
A

C
Y

 

433 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 29 S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

N
T

O
N

M
E

N
T

 F
L 32533 

850.968-2489 

D
escription 

C
H

LO
R

S
E

P
T

C
 s1 

N
O

N
-T

A
X

A
B

LE
 

I 

H
ealfi 

D
iscounts 

SubT
otal 

T
ax 

T
otal 

T
ht 

C
hange D

ue 
$38.90 

m
s 

2 

98983 

telim
e 

3/2712013 
5 40.59P

M
 

Y
O

U
 $0 M

U
C

H
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
E

 
B

A
C

K
 A

N
D

 S
E

E
 U

S
U

 Ill 



Exhbfr 1 



(5
) 

A
 s

ub
st

an
ce

, 
co

m
po

un
d,

 m
ix

tu
re

, 
or

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

in
 

W
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

ab
us

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 t
he

 s
ub

st
an

ce
s 
ii 

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
IV

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
m

ed
ic

al
 u

se
 in

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s,
 a

nd
 a

bu
se

 o
f 

su
ch

 c
ot

np
ou

nd
, 

m
ix

tu
re

, 
or

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

m
ay

 le
ad

 t
o 

lim
ite

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 o

r 
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 t
he

 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 in

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
IV

. 

(a
) 

S
ub

st
an

ce
s 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
in

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
V

 i
nc

lu
de

 a
ny

 c
om

po
un

d,
 m

ik
tu

re
. 

or
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

tn
ite

d 
qu

an
tit

ie
s 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

, 
w

hi
ch

 s
ha

ll 
in

cl
ud

e 
on

e 

or
 m

or
e 

ac
tiv

e 
m

ed
ic

in
al

 i
ng

re
di

en
ts

.w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 , 
su

ffi
ci

en
t p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
to

 

co
nf

er
 u

po
ni

he
 c

om
po

un
d,

 m
ix

tu
re

, 
or

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

va
lu

ab
le

 m
ed

ic
in

al
 q

ua
lit

ie
s 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 t

ho
se

 

po
ss

es
se

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
al

on
e:

 
1 

pe
r 

10
0 

gr
an

s 
E

 
2.

 
or

 p
er

 1
00

 g
ra

m
s.

 

3.
 

N
ot

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

00
 m

ill
ig

ra
m

s 
of

 e
th

yl
m

or
ph

in
e 

pe
r 

10
0 

m
ill

ili
te

rs
 o

r 
pe

r 
10

0 
gr

am
s.

 

4.
 

N
ot

 m
or

e 
th

an
 2

.5
 m

ill
ig

ra
m

s 
of

 d
ip

he
no

xy
la

te
 a

nd
 n

ot
 l

es
s 

th
an

 2
5 

m
ic

ro
gr

am
s 

of
 

at
ro

pi
ne

 s
ul

fa
te

 p
er

 d
os

ag
e 

un
it 

• 

. 

C
 

v 

ft 

ffd
 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


H 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surpeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201302904 

GULF MEDICAL SERVICES INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: GULF MEDICAL SERVICES INC 
6776 CAROLINE STREET 
MILTON, FL 32570 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

(11 .S 
Executive Direcir 

OF PHARMACY '/ Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHeafth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITrER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentoIHealth 
PNONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



- Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

Honda through aitegrated 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Mary Miller, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Determination of Waiver 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 

DOH Case Number 20 13-02904 

DATE: December 13, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 

information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Gulf Medical Services, Inc. s Address of 6776 Caroline Street 

Record: Milton, FL 32570 

Enforcement Address: 6776 Caroline Street 

Milton, FL 32570 

Subjects License No: 18700 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 10801 

Initial Licensure Date: 8/12/2002 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Count 1: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by 

violating Rule 64B16-27 .797( 1)(i)(4), F.A.C. 

Count 2: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by 

violating Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(i)7, F.AC. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: June 27, 2013 
Fallon and Glass 

Subjects Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Investigative Services 

Unit-Tallahassee 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General COunsel- Prosecution Services Unit a 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartlnefltOtHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fidob 

PRONE: 8501245-4444 FAX 850/245-4683 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Determination of Waiver 
Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 
Exhibit B — Copy of certified mail receipt 
Exhibit C — Board affidavit 
Exhibit D — Clerk affidavit 
Prosecutor's documents 
Motion to Assess Costs with 
Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Extended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report Exhibits 1 — 5 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 

None. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 

On or about 2/11/13, the Department conducted a routine inspection of Respondent. On or 
about 2/11/13, the Department's inspector noted the Respondent's sterilized high-risk 
preparations did not pass a sterility test or were not properly stored as required by board rule. 
The Department's inspector also noted that the Respondent's high-risk compounding 
personnel had not completed a media-filled test with a high-risk test kit on a semi-annual 
basis, as required by board rule. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

4 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-02904 

GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board 

Order in the above-styled cause on a date and 

and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against 

27, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is 

Petitioner's Exhibit A. 

of Health, by and through the 

of Pharmacy for entry of a Final 

time that has been determined 

Petitioner states: 

Respondent on June 

attached hereto as 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights form, 

and Election of Rights form were successfully served on Respondent via certified 

US mail on: October 21, 2013 (7196 9008 9111 8826 3449). A copy of the 

certified mail receipt is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

persons seeking a hearing on an agency decision 
which does or may determine their substantial interests 
shall file a petition for hearing with the agency within 
21 days of receipt of written notice of the decision. 

4. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides that: 

Any person who received written notice of an agency 
decision and who fails to file a written request for a 

hearing .within 21 days waives the right to request a 

hearing on such matters. 

5. Respondent has not filed an Election of Rights form, or any other 

responsive pleading, with Petitioner or the Board of Pharmacy within the 

required twenty-one (21) day period of time. Copies of affidavits supporting the 

same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits C & D. 

6. Based upon the foregoing, Respondent has waived the right to 

dispute any materials facts contained within the Administrative Complaint. 

Therefore, there are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by the 

Board. 



7. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a copy of 

the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, establishing a 

prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived the right to dispute any materials facts contained within 

the Administrative Complaint and enter a Final Order imposing whatever 

discipline upon Respondent's license that the Board deems appropriate. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Mary S. 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0784202 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

• I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this 1!g'1L day of 

2013, to: Gulf Medical Services, Inc., 6776 
Caroline Street, Milton, FL 32570 

J 
Mary S. MiIIdr 
Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-02904 

GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC., 

RESPONDENt 
/ 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Gulf Medical Services, Inc., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

permitted community pharmacy within the state of Florida, having been 

issued permit number PH 16983. 

0DM V. Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 



3. Respondent's address of record is 6776 Caroline Street, Milton, 

Florida 325'G. 

I 4. On or about February 11, 2013, a Department inspector 

conducted an inspection of Respondent at 6776 Caroline Street, Milton, 

Florida 32570. 

5. On or about February 11, 2013, the Department inspector 

noted the following deficiencies during the inspection: 

a. Sterilized high-risk preparations did not pass 

sterility test or preparations were not properly stored; 

and/or 

b. Personnel authorized to compound high-risk 

compounded sterile preparations (CSPs), had not 

completed .a media-liVed test with high-risk test kit on a 

semi-annual basis. 

COUNT ONE 

6. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one through 
five as if fully set forth herein. 

7. Section 5.023(1)(c), Florida Sthtutes (2012), provides that 
the board may revoke or suspend the perrnft of any pharmacy perrmttee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 
Doll v. Gulf Medical Services, inc. 

2 
Case No. 20fl-02904 



permittee who violated any of the requiremenft of Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

8. Rule 64B16-27.797(1)(i)(4), Florida Administrative Code, states 

the standard of practice for storing High-Risk Level CSPs, in the absence of 

passing a sterility test, cannot exceed specif led time periods enumerated in 

the rule. 

9. On or about February 11, 2013, a Department inspector 

observed Respondent store High-Risk Level CSPs in the absence of passing 

a sterility test in time periods exceeding the specified time periods for the 

standard of practice. 

10. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

023(1)(c), Florida Statutes .012), by violating Rule 64B16- 

27.797(1)(i)(4), Florida Administrative Code, which requires storage of 

High-Risk Level CSPs to be stored within specified time periods, in the 

absence of a sterility test for the High-Risk CSPs. 

COUNT TWO 

11. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one through 

five as if fully set forth herein. 

12. Section 5.023(1)(c),. Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 
0011 v. Services, Inc. 

3 Case Nc. 2013-02904 



and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

13. Rule 64316-27.797(1)(i)7, Florida Administrative Code, provides 

that all compounding personnel are required to demonstrate competency 

by completing a media-filled test that represents high-level compounding 

on an semi-annual basis. 

14. On or about February 11, 2013, a Department inspector 

observed Respondent's compounding personnel had not completed a 

media-filled test that represents high-level compounding on an semi- 

annual basis. 

15. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

65.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64816- 

2Z797(1)(ip, Florida Administrative Code, which requires that all 

compounding personnel complete a media-filled test that represents high- 

level compounding on a semi-annual basis. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondents license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, I v. Gu!r Medfcal Services, Inc. 
4 Case No. 2013-02934 



placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of . 2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Mary S. Miller 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Fla. Bar No. 0784202 
(850) 245-4444, extension 8104 (telephone) 

• (850) 245-4683 facsimile 
• Mary (E-Mail) 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

CLERK 
ATE JUN 2 7 2013 

': ' Me?hbers: Fan,—s--r& 
/MSM 

DOH V. Cuff Services, Inc. 
Case ND. 2013-02904 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duce5 tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess Costs related to the investigation and ion of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and cogs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOES v. l Medical Services, Inc. 

6 
Case No. 04 



• - " 
to . r — . 

7196 9006 9111 8626 3449 
TO: 

SA 

PauIinefMSM 
Date 10/17/2013 -02904 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: MAfckl -nw, k 
PS Form Janus 2006 
RETURN Postage 

Certified Fee 
Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delive 
Total postage&FeeS 

USPr POSTMARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 
Certified MaW 
No I,nuan.S Coverage Prujtsd Do Nat .s br inwrrmtiait Mail 

I 
C — I.— 

1 

rID ss 

— - ea 

.— C — t 

+ 
+ 

. I 
1.196 9006 

1 

1/,3 I 
i A. ReVØied by se F. ,.rl ) a. Dates? Delivery j C. $gnature 

9111 8626 3449 
? 

• 3. ServIce Type CERTiFIED 
4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) 

Yes I. Article Addressed to: 

0. ledeliwery address dlltetent from item 1? IVES, enter 
address below: 

"-a C 
l t C NO 

Unifren ? 
32370 

-v 

C) 
—1 

SA 

PS Form 3811 January 2005 
Domestic Return Receipt 

— 

I 



71C16 9008 9111 1367 2227 

SENDER: 

STIP PACK 
PaulinetMSM 
Date Mailed 10/14/2013 
2013-02904 

Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
REFERENCE: 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

3. Service Type CERTIFIED MAILN 

4. RestrIcted Delivery? (Extra ) 
1. le Addressed to: 

O 
Si'ff PACK 

TO: = _3 
— 

© = 
— 

o 

PS Form 3800, January 2005 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

____________________ 

Total Postage & Fees 

POSTMARK OR DATE uSps. 
Receipt for 

Certified Mair 
No Insurance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use to, International Mail 

2. Article Number 

7196 9008 ]d 138? 2227 

by (Please Pant 

GuIU l Services, Inc. 
6776 C:aroflne Street 
MHton, nda 32570 

.) 

c rrt 
C) 
1= 

3811, Janua ry 2005 n estic Ret A 



Mission: 
To protect promote & the health 

of all people in Ploilda through integrated 
slate, ouunly & efforla 

Kick Scott 
Governor 

John H.. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Slate Suigeon General & Secrutary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the NaUon 

s (flIcjil,ll 3 hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy's licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy as of 

has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or other 

responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action regarding CASE 

NAME: Gulf Medical Services, , CASE NUMBER: 2013-02904 which 

would affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared whose identity is 

known to me C) fl&. , .(type of identification) and who, under, 

oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

4k 
this — dayof 

Florida Department of Health 
ol the General Counsel • Prosecullon SeMces Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Sin C-65 - Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
105 

PHONE: 8501245-4444- FAX -4663 

I 

.com 
TWlrTER:HealthyFLA 

FACE BOOK FLDepa sith 
VOUTUBE: fidoh 

HEALTH 

Sworn to and subscribed 2013. t 



Mission Rick Scott 
To piotect, promote & improve the health r Governor 

John W Annatrong, MD, FACS 

H Surgeon General & secretary 

Vision: To be the State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT 

i, Deputy Clerk for the Department Clerk's Office, 

hereby certify I my official capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's records, that the 

Department Clerk's Office has not received an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading, which requests a hearing prior to any Department action regarding Case N?me: 
Gulf Medical Services. Inc. Case No.: , which would affect the Respondent's 

substantial interests or rights. 

Custodian of Re rd 
Department Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared aawhose identity is known to me by 

nersonallv known (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her 

signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

____Thay 

of C.-r' . 
Notary Public 

BARTON 1 t\ Notary Pubuc - Slate of Florida 
1- • My Comm. Expires Sepi. 20t7 t Commission t if 49339 

ISnW IflflSI. 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail addrest 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 

www.FioyldasNoalthàom 
TWITTER:HeafthyrLA lth 

VOUTUBE:fldoh 

My Commission Expires: 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-02904 

GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC., 

Respondent. 

___________________________________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4); Florida 

Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will 

enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed through 
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 



2001, pursuant to this section or discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 
July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is not board, 
shalt assess costs retated to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are not 
limited to, salaries and benefits of personnet, costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other 
personnel working on the case, and any other 
expenses incurred by the department for the case. 
The board, or the department when there is no 
board, shall determine the amount of costs to be 
assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written objections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the totat amount of $530.62, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

Complaint: 0.20 $10.98j 
Investigation: 4.90 
Legal: 2.60 

Compliance: 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total: 7.70 $530.62 
Expenses to 
Date: 

oo t. 
Prior Amount: 

[ $0.00 
Total Costs to 
Date: 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $254.11 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and assess 

costs in the amount of $254.11 as supported by competent, substantial 

evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other discipline 

imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent in 

the amount of $254.11. 

3 



DATED this "day of , 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

MaryS.Mi r 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0784202 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel. 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Mary.Miller2@flheath.gov 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Motion 

to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this tiH day of 

btctni_bzc , 2013, to: Gulf Medical Services, Inc., 6776 Caroline 

Street, Milton, FL 32570. 

Mary S. 

Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health ]). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOE] 
case number(s) 201 3-02904 (Department of Health v. GULF 
MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.) are FIVE HUNDRED THIRTY DOLLARS 
AND SIXTY-TWO CENTS ($530.62). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 3-02904 (Department of Health 
v. GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 

(Cost Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2013-02904 
(Department of Health v. GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC.) are 
detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

I of 2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee.is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Walters, 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is nown to me. 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 cf2 

ignature 

A 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201302904 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: MEDICAL SERVTCES, INC 

[ 
Cost to Date 

Hours Costs 
Complaint: 0.20 $10.98J 

investigation; 4.901 13j 
Legal: 2.60 $276.51] 

Compliance; 0.00 $0.00] 

Sub Total: $530.62 

Expenses to Date: $0.00 
Prior Amount: 

] 
$0.00 

Total Costs to Date: I $530.62 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl .us/IRMOOTIMETRAKIC SDETL.ASP' 12/10/20 13 
j 

EXHIBIT 

/ 



D
iv

is
io

n 
ol

 Q
uo

lfl
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
12

/1
0/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 

1 
of

2 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

C
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

IA
 16

7 
0.

20
 

$5
4.

90
 

$1
0.

98
 

02
/2

2/
20

13
 

78
 

IN
IT

IA
L 

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
20

 
$1

0.
98

 

IF
'R

O
S

E
C

U
T

LO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

H
LL

7O
A

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

H
LL

7O
A

 
1.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

H
LL

7O
A

 
1.

00
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

$1
27

.6
2 

$1
06

.3
5 

05
/0

1/
20

13
 

05
/0

2/
20

13
 

10
/1

1/
20

13
 

25
 

28
 

79
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 N
T

 
S

T
IP

U
LA

T
IO

N
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

2.
60

 
$2

76
.5

1 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

--
 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 

M
O

A
 

**
*C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

T
IA

L
**

* 
T

ir
ue

 T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

13
02

90
4 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

4.
90

 

12
7 

0.
20

 
$4

9.
62

 
$9

.9
2 

02
/2

7/
20

 1
3 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
B

I2
7 

0.
60

 
$4

9.
62

 
$2

9.
77

 
03

/0
7/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

81
27

 
0.

40
 

$4
9.

62
 

$1
9.

85
 

03
/1

3/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

7 
2.

70
 

$4
9.

62
 

$1
33

.9
7 

04
/1

7/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

7 
0.

80
 

$4
9.

62
 

$3
9.

70
 

04
/1

7/
20

 1
3 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
13

12
7 

0.
20

 
$4

9.
62

 
$9

.9
2 

04
/1

8/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

$2
43

.1
3 

I 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 —

 



O
iv

hd
on

 
**

* 
C

 O
N

 F
 I

D
 E

N
 T

I A
L

 
M

ed
ic

ol
 Q

ua
lit

y 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
13

02
90

4 

R
ep

or
tD

at
e 

10
/2

01
3 

P
ag

e2
of

2 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



ci
 

**
* 

C
 O

N
 F

 ID
E

 N
 T

I A
L

 
M

ed
ic

al
 G

uo
lil

y 
4s

su
ra

nc
e 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

N
/t 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

12
/1

0/
20

13
 

P
ag

e!
 o

f 
1 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 

--
 F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

.E
 O

N
LY

--
 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 

- 
- 

- 
- 



Rick Ssott Mission: 
Governor To promote & improve the healTh a 

of all peopM in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nalion 

October 17, 2013 

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

Mr. Michael lfren 
Gulf MedicalServices, Inc. 
6776 Caroline Street 
Milton, Florida 32570 

RE: Department of Health vs. Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
DOH Case No.: 2013-02904 

Dear Mr. Haifren: 

Certified Article Number 
P196 9111 8626 3449 

SENDEnS .BECORD 

Thank-you for your prompt attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosed you will find a copy of the revised Settlement Agreement in your client's case we thscussed 
earlier today. I believe the enclosed Settlement Agreement includes all of the revised terms we 
discussed earlier today. Please let me know if I overlooked anything. 

If the proposed revised Settlement Agreement is acceptable, please have the appropriate person in 
your corporate office sign it before a notary public and return it to my office at your earliest 
convenience, If you or someone in your corporate office wishes modify the proposed Settlement 
Agreement, please call me at (850)-245-4444, extension 8104 to discuss the Settlement Agreement 
further. 

Mary S. 
Assistant General Counsel 

cam 
I1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparftnenton'leath 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

MSM/mm 

End: Settlement Agreement 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel ' Prosecution Services 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Sufte 105 

PHONE: .4 FAX 8501245-4683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

V. CASE NO. 2013-02904 

GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC., 

RESPON DENT. 
I 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Gulf Medical Services, Inc., 

was a permitted community pharmacy in the state of Florida, having been 

issued license number PH 18700. Respondent's mailing address of record 

is 6776 Caroline Street, Milton, Florida 32570. 

DOH V. Gulf Medical /Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02g04 

1 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that it is subject to the, provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department. 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

fine of ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS. and NO CENTS ($1,000.00). The 

fine shall be paid by Respondent to the Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 
DON v. Guir Medical Services, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 

2 



Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the 

Final Order approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Final 

Order) is filed with the Department Clerk. 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed ONE THOUSAND FOUR 

HUNDRED TWENTY FOUR DOLLARS AND TWENTY-SEVEN CENTS 

($1,424.27). Total costs shall be assessed when the Settlement 

Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid by 

Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance Management 

Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, Talléhassee, Florida 32314- 

6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is filed with the 

Department Clerk. 

4. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuantthereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

5. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

DOH v. Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 

3 



incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

8. PurDose of - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to supØort 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

DOR v. Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 

4 



the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order wilt not preclude additionat 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

10. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

11. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives l rights 

to further administrative procedure and to appeat and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

12. Current - Respondent shall keep current its mailing 

address and its practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

Doll V. Gulf Medical SeMces, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 

Officer 

Officer 

S 



WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this 

_____ 

day of 2013 

NAME: 
Authorized Representative for 
Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
CASE NO. 20 13-02904 

STATE OF____________ 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared 

___________, 

whose identity is known to 
me or by (type of identification), 
and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 

_____________, 

2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

DOH v. Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 

6 



APPROVED this 

_____ 

day of 

_____________________, 

2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General .& Secretary 
Florida Department of Health 

Mary Miller 
Assistant General Counsel 

• Florida Department of Health 
• Florida Bar Number 0780420 

4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: 850-245-4444 
Fax: 85Q-245-4683 
E-Mail: @flheafth.gov 

DOH 't Gulf Medical Services, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-02904 7 

I 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Gulf Medical Services, Inc. (MSM) 
Case Number: 2013-02904 

MEMBERS: Lee Fallon and Debra Glass 

DATE OF PCP: June 27, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-4 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. - Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16—27.797(l)(i)(4),Florida 
Administrative Code; 

Section ). Florida Statutes (20121. by ! Rule 64B1627.797(1)(iI(7). Florida 
Administrative 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

______________________________________________ 

Chair, Cause Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



• STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Area I Pensacola Date of Case: 2/15/13 Case Number: PH 2013-02904 
Subject: 

GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 
6776 Caroline Street 
Milton, FL 32570 
(850) 983-3705 

Source: 

DOHIISU TALLAHASSEE 
JOHN TAYLOR, SENIOR IST 
4030 Esplanade Way 
Tallahassee, FL 33901 
(850) 519-1181 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PH 18700 COMMUNITY/SPECIAL PE PHARMACY 4/18/13 

PHARMACY 
Period of Investigation: 2/27/13 —4/18/13 Type of Report: FINAL 

Alleged Violation: FS 456.072(1)(dd) Violating any provision of this chapter... 465.016(1)(r) Violating any provision of 
this chapter.. - 465.023 (1)(c) Violating any of the requirements of FAC 64B16-27.797 (CSPs) (1)(i) 4. For 
properly stored sterilized high-risk preparation, in the absence of passing a sterility test, the storage periods cannot 
exceed the following time periods: before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 
24 hours at controlled room temperature, and for not more than 3 days at a cold temperature (2-8 degrees Celsius) and 
for not more than 45 days in solid frozen state at -20 degrees celsius or colder. 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a complaint, and Class II Institutional Pharmacy, 
Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs) inspection forms and (Case Summary) 
EXHIBIT ) submitted by Senior Pharmacist JOHN TAYLOR in regard to GULF MEDICAL SERVICES 
(GMS) reporting Senior Pharmacist TAYLOR conducted a routine inspection of GMS, d.b.a. Gulf Medical 
Pharmacy, a Community Pharmacy located at 6776 Caroline Street, Milton, FL 32570, on 2/11/2013. 
Findings of inspection alleged violation for failure to provide evidence of sterility for dispensed high risk 
preparation for which an extended beyond use date (20 days with storage at room temperature) was 
assigned. Findings further alleged failure to provide evidence that compounders of high risk preparations 
have successfully completed a high risk media test within the last six months. 

The PDM of GMS was notified of the investigation by letter dated 2/27/13 and was provided 
case summary and the originating documentation from EXHIBIT 1 EXHIBIT . 
A check of Department computer records revealed GMS is currently licensed as a PE 
pharmacy. 

There was no patient involved in this case; therefore, notification was not required. 

OMS is not know to be represented by attorney in this matter. • 

On 3/13/13, by hand served letter by MICHAEL HALFEN, Pharm. D., PDM to Investigator RICHARD 
received GMS response statement from KENNETH STEBER, President of GMS EXHIBIT . STEBER 
acknowledged the allegations and stated immediate steps were taken to correct the allegations. 

Related Case: PS 2013-02905 Recehiert 

Lnvestig r/Qat : A/—I 9— / 3 By/Date: 

APP 7013 Lloyd E. Richard, BI-27, Investigator Cathy Investigator Supervisor 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-02904 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 : 
Statement of KENNETH STEBER, President of subject (Exhibit 5) 3-4 

IV. EXHIBITS 
* 

1. Case Summary, DOH/MQA complaint and pharmacy inspection forms 5-11 

2. Copy of notification letter mailed to PDM of GMS dated 2/27/13 with enclosures 12-18 

3. Pharmacy inspection forms completed on 3/20/12, 1/10/11 and 12/22/09 19-24 

4. CQI meeting for ft Quarter 2013 25-26 

5. President STEBER's response (not dated) received on 3/13/13 with attachments 27-40 

* RECORDS CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFY PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

NV FORM 300. Revised 02/08. Created 7/02 Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 201 3-02904 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Complaint was found during routine inspections by Senior Pharmacist TAYLOR for Community Pharmacy and 
Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSP5) at Gulf Medical Pharmacy on 2/11/1 3. 
Items 1 and 2 were not complied with on the CSPs inspection form. 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT I is information forwarded by the Consumer Services Unit (CSU) to ISU. This information consists of a 
Case Summary and the following: 

• DOH!MQA complaint form completed by the Senior Pharmacist Inspector TAYLOR who provided: 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 2/11/13; no deficiencies. 
• Standards of Pcactice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSP5) inspection form completed on 

2/11113; items 1 and 2 were found deficient; item I - example found of high risk compounded product 
dispensed with a five day beyond use date with no evidence of sterility testing of product prior to 
dispensing; item 2 — compounding staff has not completed high risk media fill testing. 

• IV Worksheet on Rx #02001856 for Hydromorphone HCL power 2500 mg / 500 ml dated 2/8/13 
compounded with sodium CHL 0.9% 

• Medication label for Rx #02001 556 for Hydromorphone HCL 2500 mg / 500 ml; no refills, discard after 
2/28/13. 

EXHIBIT 3 was printed by Investigator RICHARD from COMPAS. Exhibit included: 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 3/20/1 2; no deficiencies. 
• Standards of Practice for CSPs inspection form completed on 3/20/12; no deficiencies. 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 1/10/11; no deficiencies. 
• Sterile Products and Special-Parenteral Enteral Compounding Pharmacy form completed on 1/10/11; no 

deficiencies. 
• Community Pharmacy inspection form completed on 12/22/09; no deficiencies. 
• Sterile Products and Special-Parenteral Enteral Compounding Pharmacy form completed on 12/22/09; no 

deficiencies. 
All the above inspections passed. 

EXHIBIT 4 was provided to Investigator RICHARD by HALFEN on 4/17/13. Exhibit included Quarter CQI 
meeting notes. No issue with CSPs. 

STATEMENT OF KENNETH STEBERI PRESIDENT OF : 
Address of business: 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 
D.B.A. GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 
6776 Caroline Street 
Milton, FL 32570 
Business telephone: (850) 983-3705 

On 3/13/13, Investigator RICHARD received a response statement (no date) via hand service by HALFEN for 
STEBER EXHIBIT . 
This letter is in response to the allegations of the pharmacy inspection of 2/11/13 alleging violations to high risk 
technique testing of employees and beyond use dating of PCA infusions. "In the course: of reviewing the 
personal aseptic technique over the past 3 years the pharmacy has been testing the compounding technicians 
semi-annually with what was at the time the only PAIT (Personal Aseptic Technique) available on the market.. 

NV FORM 300. Revised 02108, created 7102 Paqe 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 201 3-02904 

After being notified by the inspector on this second inspection with the new USP formatted form (previous 
inspection 3/20112) that this was not satisfactory, research was done by both the pharmacist and infusion 
suppliers to find a valid high risk media fill kit." These kits were immediately ordered and have been implemented 
with the compounding technicians (see attachment completion dates). 

The pharmacy has substantially increased the testing of their compounding personnel, compounding 
environment, and products to further insure the safety of their patients. 

Attachments to statement: 
1. Investigator RICHARD signed receipt of documents from PDM MICHAEL HALFEN on 3/13/13. 
2. Testing Schedule 2013 for personnel with dates. 
3. Pharmacy Label for Morphine indicating start infusion by dated (example). 
4. Certificate of Analysis on Morphine Sulfate I mg/mi, lot #2001289; date tested 4/23/12. 
5. Certificate of Analysis on Morphine Sulfate I mg/mI, lot #2001289; date tested 3/26/1 2. 
6. Certificate of Analysis on Hydromorphone 1 mg/mI, lot #081106H1, received on 8/17/06. 
7. Microbiology Report on Hydromorphone 1 mg/mI, lot #0811 06H1 test results, received on 8/17/06. 
8. Certificate of Analysis on Morphine Sulfate 10 mg/mI, lot #0811 06M1 0; date tested 8/28/06. 
9. Microbiology Report on Morphine Sulfate 10mg/mi for lot #081 b; results date tested 9/5/06. 
10. Certificate of Analysis on lofen 2 mg/mI, lot#071210MH; tested 9/13/10. 
11. Microbiology Report on Bacloferi 2mg/mi, lot #071210MH; tested 8/11/10. 
12. Blank Testing Schedule (new management form for CSPs testing requirements). 

INV FORM 300. Revised 02/08, created /02 Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FiIe# 10801 

Insp# 105809 

FLORIDA 

WWW.D0I-I.STATE.FL.US 

I have read and have had Utis inspection report and the laws and regulations carcemed herein explained, and do affirm that the irdormation given herein is hue and correct to the best of my lurowtedge. I have received a copy of 
the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, , 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
ROUTINE LaCE EW CURRENTLY NOT ING OWNER E 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHA?TER465.017, CI-LkPTER 893.09 N'JD CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
3/20/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 
8G7912771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Sfreet 

TELEPHONE # EXT 
850-983-3705 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE 4 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1.Donna le-nan PS 8932 

Open 8am 8am Barn Sam Sam closed closed 2. George Anderson PS 12203 
Close 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 3. TIffany Denham RPT 2951R 

1 Rx depariment hours open days for 40 hours per week. 64B16-28.1081, F.A.C.] 
2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervIsed. 64816-27.420, F.A.C.] 

3 Pharmacist on duty when Rx departhient open. 64816-28.109, F.A.C.] 

4 Fropersigns displayed. 465.025(7), F.S.] (64816-28.109(1), F.A.C.] 64816-28.1081, F.A.CJ (64816-28.1035, F.A.C.] 64816-27.100t FA.C.l 
A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patient's agent. 64816—27.820(1), F.A.C.] 

8 Prescription deparhuent has convenient sink/running water. 64B16-28.102( 1), F.A.C.] 

7 Prescription department clean and safe. 84816.28,102(4). F.AC.] 
8 Proper equipment and references as required. 6481 6-28.l02(5Xa), F.A.C.J 

9 Medication properly labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] (64816-28.108, F.A.C.] 

ID Expired medications removed from the shelves. 64916-28.110, F.A.C.J 

11 CDI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (766.101, F.S.j 64916-27.300, /AC.] 
12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 1465.022(4), P.s.] 
13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacisls, 893.04(1)(c) 6, F.S.] 84816-28.140(3xb), F.A.C] 
14 Pharmacy maintains patient proete records. (64816-27.800, F.A.C.] 

15 Alt conbolled substance prescriptions contain Information required. (893.04, P.S.] 

16 Prescriptions for conbolled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescilpton pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and dale meet the requirements of 456.42(2), P.S.]. 

17 Prescriptions may not be ifIled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 893.04(lXg), F_S.] {84B16-27.2 11, F.A.C.] 
— — 18 Cone-oIled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. 893.07(1)(a), F.S.] — - 

19 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 893.07, F.S.] : - 20 Controlled substance records and Rx intormation in computer system Is retrievable. (2ICFR 1306.22] 64816-28.140, AC.] 
- K 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 465.022(12)(b), P.S.] : - 22 Certified daily log OR printoul maintained. 21CFR 1306.22(bX3)] (64816.28.140(3xb), F.A.C.] — - 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions wititin 24 hours or close of business on next business day of leaming of instance. 
Reports include all required information. (465.01 5(3), P.S.] 

— 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all cone-oiled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriff wIthin 24 hours of discovery. (893.07(5), F.S.] 465.015, F.S.] 
25 Pharmacy Is reporting to the PDMP within 7 days of dispensing cone-oIled substance. 893.055(4), P.S.] 1 
26 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Repârtlng system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 

(499.0121(14), P.S.) 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64816-27.210, F.A.C.I 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. (64816-27.700, F.A.C.r 
29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.016(1)Q), F.SJ (64816-26.118, FAG.] 
30 Pedigree records retrievable. 164F-12.012(3Ra)2.. (ci). F.A.C.] 

Note: If establishment Is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, a separate inspection form shodd be completed. 
Remarks: Melissa McGutfey RPT 18664; Joy Patlerson RPT 37779; Sharon FortRPT 27620. Rita Jones -Tech Trainee; Yvonne Lee - Tech Trainee. DEA expires 9-30-2014. #2 

Tech ratio letter 11-10-2005, #11 Last CDI meeting 2-3-2012. #12 Future Requirement, #18 CS inventory 1-30-2012, #22 Printout. #23 None since 7-1.2011. #24 None since 7-1-2011. 
No outpatient CII prescriptions. 
Batch compounding. No compounding for practitioner office stock. 
Ra drug suppliers: McKesson-Lakoland, Anda-Weston; Medisca (23:1911). 

12 
Institutional Representative - 

Nv 359 Revised 12/Il. 10/Il, 9/11, If/b, 10/09. 5/06,12/02,12/00 
Date 

EX knBrr # 

I2O 
Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations ) 
INE CMNGE fl NEW NOT OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, IDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
1B700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 
BGT91 2771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MAf4AGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Sheet 

TELEPHONE # EXT. 
650-983-3705 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

SATISFACTORY VA YES NO 
1 Types of sterile compounding prepared (or expected to prepare) per 64916-27.797, ]. Undersigned pharmacist attests: — . — 

a) High-Risk Level CSPs (If yea, must complete items 586 - may not answer N/A) 

b) Immediate Use CSPa (If yes. must complete Items 7 & 8 - may not answer N/A) 
: — 

c) Low-Risk Level CSPs (If yes, must complete items 9 & 10 . may noi answer N/A) 

d) Medium-Risk CSPs ' 

. 

e) Antineopiastic Drugs (Cytotoxins) (if yes, must complete liens 18. 19.20 & 22 . may not answer N/A) 

. 

— 

2 All sieriio compounds prepared in barnier isolator? if yes. may answer NA to 3b, 3c, 3d, 4, & 21. 6481 6-2?.797(5)(e), F,A,C.] 

. 

— 

3 environment appropriate far Risk Level (certification by independent qualified organization). — 

a) Barrier isolator? 
. 

b) Anteroom/Ante area? 

. — 

X 
* — 

— 
c) Buffer Area (Clean Room)? 

: 2 — 
d) Laminar Air Flow Hood(s)? — 

4 Buffet area does not contain sinks and drains. (64816-27.797(lgQ, F.A.CJ 

. 

— . 

Sterilized high-risk preparatons pass sterility test OR preparations are properly siored, prior to administration, not exceeding time periods specified in rule. 
64B16-27.797(lgl), F.A,C.) 

6 Personnel authorized to corhpound high-risk-level CSPs completed a media-filled tastwithin the past6 months (semiannually), 64816-27.797(lXi),F,A,C.] 
7 Preparation tme does not exceed 1 hour when preparing immediate use CSPs, (&4318-27.797(1Xj), F.A,C.] 

8 Preparation is properly iabeied if preparer boes not adrninialer ory/thess administration when preparing immediate-use CSPs. 64B16-27.797(1)Q), F.A.C,] 
9 Storage recommendatons in rules are not exoeeded when preparing low-risk CSPs. -27.797(lXn), F.A,C.J 

10 Personnel authorized to compound low-risk level CSPs completed a media-filled test within the past 12 months. 64316-27.797(1)(n), F.A.C,J 

11 P & P includes use of singielmuitdose containers not to exceed 797 guidelines. 64816.27-797(4), F.A.C.J 

12 P & P includes verification of compounding accuracy and sterility. (64B16-27.797(4), FAD.] 
13 P & P indudes personnel training and evaluation in asepto manipulation skills. (64916-27.797(4), F.A.C.J 

14 P & P includes environmental quality and control. 64916-27,797(4), FAD.] 
15 Appropriate disposal containers. 18-27.797(5), F.A.C,) 

16 Appropriate temperature and transport devices. 64818-27.797(5), FAD,] 
17 Adequate supphes (gloves, mask, etc.) to preserve a suitabie environment for aseptic preparation. (64816-27.797(5), FAG.] 
18 SpIt kits for antneoplastc agent spills If required. (64B16-27,7g7(5), FAG.] 
19 Current reference material (hardcopy or on-tine). 64816-27.797(5); and 64B16-27.797(1X2), F.A.C.I 
20 All preparations are compounded in a vertical flow, Class t or biologicai safety cabinet. 64816-27.797(6), FAG,] 
21 Protective apparel requirements are met. (64916-27.797(6), F.A.C.] 

22 Disposal of antineoplasfic waste meets at applicable requirements. 64916-27.797(6), F.A.C.) 

23 Documented on-going quality assurance. (64818-27.797(7). FAG,] 
24 QualIty assurance audits at regular planned intervals. 1(7), FAG) 
25 CompoundIng personnel skilled and trained based on observation. 64916-27.797(7), F.A.C] 

Remarks: #3 ENV Services Testing & Certification, 4758 Research Drive, San Antonio, TX 78240, (February 15, 2012.) 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations tancarned herein explained, and do allirni that the isformatoa gwen herein tue aM tarred 10 the best of my IciotNiadge. I have a copy 
of the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, APh 

institutioplai Representative- -- - investigator/sr. Pnarmacist Signature 
1NV 797 Revised 12/11 Created 6/11 

FiIe# 10801 

Insp# 105809 

IDA DEPARt OF 

IEALT 

03-20-2012 
Date 

ID ci2O 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY S CIWIGE NEW NOT OPSRATINC OWNER El I FiIe# 10801 

lnsp# 96803 

FLORiDA DEP 

WWW.D OH STATE. FL. )5 

INSPECTION AUTHORFIY - CHAPTER465.017, GRAFTER 89309 AND CHAPTER FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, license must so indicate and a separate inspection torn, should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
1/10/2011 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 1 PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Sifeet 

TELEPHONE # I EXT. 
850-893-3705 

I 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Ewednesdayl Thursday I Friday I Saturday 

I Sunday 
Open 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am closed closed 

1. Donna Pittman PS 8932 

2. Eiloitt Roberts P88262 
Close 

I 

4:30pm 
I 

4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 
j 

4:30pm 3. George Anderson PS 12203 
SATISFACTORY WA YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

1 Current phamiscy permit displayed. 465.015(lXa),F.S.] 26 All medicinal drug Rxs require date dispensed. 
64816-28.140(3)(b)2,F.A.C.] N El 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current department 
manager. 465.018.F.Sj 

27 PrescriptIon records identif/ the responsible dispensing phamiacists. 
64B16-28.I40(3)(b)7.F.A.C.] N El 

CurrentDEAregisfration. 21CFR 1301.11] 465.023(1)(c).F.S.] N El 28 Complete pharmacy presoiption records, 64B16-28.140,F.A.C.J N El 
4 Rx department hours open for business are posted and are a minimum N El of 40 hours per week. 6481 6-28.404, F.A.C.I 29 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64316-27.800.F.A.C.] N El 
5 intems property registered and superv'sed. 465.013,F.S.] 

El 16-26.400(4),F.A.Cj io Controlled sUbstance records readlyretrievabie. 893.07.F.S.] N El 
6 Pharmacy technicians properly identified end supervised. 

64B16-27.410,F.A.Cj 
31 Initials of pharmacist fiting confroled substance Rx. N 0 

7 Proper pharmacist technician ratio, If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has N 0 32 Prescribers name/address/flEA 4 on all controlled substance Rx. 
Board of Pharmacy approval. 64B16-27,420, F.A.C.] 893.04(i)(c)2.F.S.l 

8 PharmacIst license/renewal certificate displayed. N o (1 )F.A.C.) 
33 Patient's name/address on controlled substance ftc. 

893.04(1 Xc)1 .F.S.] N 0 
9 Pharmacist on duty when Rx department open. 64B15-28.109,FA.C. 34 Date contioled substance Rx was filled on tc. 

893.04(1)(c)6,F,S,] N 0 
IC Generic drug sign displayed. 465.025(7),F.S.] N 0 35 All conboled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed, 

quantity and directions for use. 893.04(l)(c)4,F,5,J N El 
11 Sign displayed Rx Dept Ciosee it establishment is open and Rx 

N Department closed. 64B16-28.1o9(1),F.A.C.] 
36 Date of refills written on controlled substance Rx or on computer records. N 0 

12 Sign with meal break hours of lacist, (no more than half hour), and 
stating i a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon N 0 0 request. 64B16-27.400(6),F.A,C,] 

37 Pharmacist's Initials on controlled substance ftc refills. 
c)6.F.S,] N 0 

13 Stgn designating the pnvate patient consultation area N 0 64B16-28.1035.F,A.C.] 
38 Controlled substance refills limited to 5 within 6 months from date 

prescription was signed, N U 
14 Adequate wntten and verbal offer to counsel patents. N 0 Conh'otied substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available 

64B16-27.820,F.A.C.] for inspection. B93.DT(1)(a),F.S.] N 0 
15 Adequate patient counseling by pharmacist when offer is accepted. N 64916-27 .820,F AC.] 40 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 893.07(2), F.S.] N 0 
16 Ra dept. has stnlUrunning water convenient to Rx dept 

N 64B16-28.102,F.A.C.] 
41 Conticled substance ftc information in computer system is retrievable 

CFR 1306.22] 893.07,F.S] 64916-28.140,F.A,C,]' ' El N 0 
17 Prescription departnsnt has drug refrigeration storage. 

64B16-28.104,F.A.C) 
42 Contioted substance records maintained for 2 years. - 

(CFR 1304.04 & 1306.22] 69307(4)(b),F.S.] N 0 
18 PrescriptIon deparfrneni clean and safe. (64B16-28.loS,F.A.C.J N 0 43 Schedule V drug records/sales property kept. 893.08(3)(a),F.S.j N 0 
19 Rx balance and weights or electronic balance: counting fray or other 

suitable counting device; assortment of graduates/spatutas/mortar and N 0 pesties. 64916-28.l07(2)(a.d),E.A.C.] 
Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. fl N 0 64B16-28.140(3Xc) OR (e),P.A.Cy 

20 Current reference books and current copy of laws and rules In hard copy or in N 1 45 Registered phannacist properly prescrIbing. 64916-27.21 0,FAC.] N 0 0 a readily available electronic data format 64516-28.107(1), F.&C1 

21 Medication properly labeled 64B16-27.l0l,F.A.C.] N 0 46 Compounding records properly maintained 64816-28.140(4),F.A.C.J * E] N 0 
22 All P.s medication within the Ra department. (64816-28.120(1).F.A.C.] N 0 Unit dose records properly maintained (64816-27410(1), FAC.] 0 N 0 
23 COt Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings N 0 (protected under 766.10I.F.S.] 64816-27.300, F.A.C.] ' 

24 Outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. N r:i (64816-28.110. FA.C.] 
* Quest/ons w/th C) may be answered n/a (not applicable). 

25 Discard on P.s label. 64816-28.402(1)Q,),F,A.C,] N 0 
Remarks: Sarah Steele P538813. Tiffany Denham RPT29518; Edward liano RPT26662; Derek Luke RPT 27589. #3 DEA expires 9-30-2011. #5 NA. #7 Tech ratio letter 

11-10-2005. #23 LastCOi meeting 10-14-2010. #39 CS inventory 1-14-2010. #43 NA. #44 Printout ftc drug purchases Mokesson-Lakeland and Medisca. 

institutional Representative 
1NV 359 Revised 01/07 Rspiaces 12102 

I have read and have had this Inspectios report and the laws and regalations concerned herein explained, atd do affinn that the intomiation gwen herein is frue aid correct to die best of my Imowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, RPh 

01-10-201 1 

Date Investigator/sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ID ci2O 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION /I 0/2011 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL PHARMACY 

DEA NUMBER 
BG7912771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Street 

TELEPHONE # I EXT. 
850-893-3705 

I 

CITY I COUNTY 
MILTON SANTA ROSA 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MAMAGER LICENSE 4 
32618 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Thursday I iday Saturday I Sunday 

Open 8:30am 8:30am 6:30am 8:30am 8:30am closed closed 

Close 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 
p 4:30pm 4:30pm 

1 see community InspectIon Form 

2. 

3 

SATISFACTORY WA YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
I Currant sterile products and special parenteraifenteralcompounding z D pham,acypemiitdlsplayed. F.A.C.] 

19 Current chapter of Statutes: 465 and 499 and 893, and Bcard Rules 
64B16-26.820(5)(e)1.4,F.A.C.] E 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current Rn department manager. 
8461 6-28.820(3)(a), F.AC.] Z fl 20 Currentunited ,acopoeia & National Fonmulary or Remington 

Phamlaceulical Sciences Or U.S. Dispensatory along with the latest 
supplementals or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope meet the . 

professional practice need of the pharmacy AND a current authoritailve 
therapeutic reference. 64B16-28.870(5Xe)5,FA. 

3 Current DEA registration, (21CFR 1301.11] 465.023(iXc),F.S.] Z J 
4 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. 64Bl6-27.100(1 ),F.A.C.] Z 1 21 Current son of the Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Society of 

Healthsyslem 64B16_28.820(5xe)6,FA.C.] Z E 
5 Interns properly registered and supervised. 465.01 3F.S.] 

643l6-26.400.F.A.C.] Z 0 22 Pharmaceutical stock examined at least every four months and 
deteriorated or outdated items removed. 64816-28.1 1,FA.C] Z 0 

6 Proper pharmacist technician rato. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 
Board of Pharmacy approval. 64B16-27.410.FAC.jj64616-27,42o,F.kC.] Z 0 23 MedIcation properly labeled. 64B16-27.101.F.A.C.] Z 

7 Pharmacy technicians properly idenfified and supervised. 64516-27400,F.A.C.] C 
24 tiscard After date provided on prescription label. 

1628.402(lXh).F.A.C,] Z C 
25 Written offer to counsel. 64916-27.820,F.A.C.] 

8 Prescription area set apart for sterile prescriptions from general 
wort4storage area/adequately air-conditioned or under positive pressure. 0 ] 26 SpecIal of prescrlptons with telephone 

accessibility to pharmacist at all hours. 64B16-28.820(3gb),F.A.C.] 

9 Working sink convenient to the clean room. 64B1 6-28.820(5Xc)3.F.A.C.] 
27 Licensed pharmacist certifies accuracy of final preparation and documents 

in a manner that responsibility can be traced 10 the pharmacist. 0 6481 6-27.400(2Xc)(d),FAC.] 

ID Refrigeratiort'freezer/sinldappropriate waste containers for used neediest 
syringes. 

28 CDI Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings 
(protected under 766.101,F.S] 64816-27.300,F.A.C.]' C Z C 

11 Gloves/masks/gownsNanous standard afres of needles/syringes/ 

C disinfectant deaning agent/clean towels. 64B18-26.820(5Xd)1-4,F.A.C.] 
29 Prescriber's name/address/DEA # on all controlled substance prescription. 

P.S. 893.04(lXc)2,F.A.C.] Z C 
12 Bacterial hand-washing materialsNecuum containers and various transfer z o sets, spill kits' for cytotoxic agent spills. 64B16-28.820(5)(c)5-F.A.C,] 

30 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance prescriptions on 
prescription. 893.04(xyc)6.F.S.] Z C 

13 ApproprIate waste containers for alt cytotoxic waste including apparel Used 

C in prescriptions. 64B16-28.820(5Xc)4b,F.kC.] 
31 Controlled substance Inventory taken on biennial basis and available for 

inspection. 893.07(1)(a),F.S.] C 
14 Certified horizontal or vertical laminer airflow hood(s). 

616-28.820(3)(e),F.A.C.] 32 DEA 222 order forms property completed. 893.O7.F,S.] ] 
15 Certified vertical laminar airflow hood used for cytotoxina. 

016-28.820(3)(e),F.A.C]' C C 33 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required. by section. o l6-28.140(3)(c) or (e),F.A.C.] - 

16 Soard approved policy and procedure manual available for inspectIon. 
81628.82o(3Xd,F.A.C.] 

34 DispensIng done pursuant to prescriptions with patient profiles maintained. 
(64816-28.820(3)(c), F.A.C. Z C 

? Separate manuat/equipmenthanding procedures and protection for 
personnel if cytotoxic agents are dispensed. 0(3Xe). F.A.C J 35 Results of quality assurance program available for inspection, 

(646152$82O(3XD) FAC 
18 Practice Guidelines for Persorviet Dealing With Cytotoxic Drugs. 

B16-28.820(5Xe)7. FA.C. Z 0 *QuestIons wIth (not applicable). 

Remarks: See community Inspection form for details. #12, #13, #15, #17, & #18 - Nocytotoxins prepared. Hoods certified 12-29-2010. 

I hate read and have had this inspection repcrt and the at's and regutatiots concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is tue and ocrrecl to the best of my knowledge. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen,, RPh . 

lnsbtutional Representattve 
NV 364 Revised 01/07 Replaces 1 2'02 

File# 10801 

Insp# 96803 

FLORIDA OF 

REALT 
STERILE PRODUCTS AND SPECIAL-PARENTERAL WWW.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

ENTERAL COMPOUNDING PHARMACY 

R0tJT1NE OHMICE tOOL NEW C NOT C OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - 465.017, CI{APTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

01-10-2011 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ID ci2O 



12-22-2009 14L 
Date InvestigatorlSr. Pharmacist Signature 

?LORIDA DEPARrK3Nr 

ID ci2O 

Fite# 10801 

88189 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

ROUTINC CIWIGE NEW U CIJRRZNTLY NOT fl cwjice owwca fl 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note: If establishment is engaged in lenteral compounding, license roust so indicate and a separate Inspection form should be completed 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
12/22)2009 

DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL VITAL CARE;GULF MEDICAL PHA 

DEA NUMBER 1 PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 Caroline Street 

, 

TELEPHONE # I 

850-983-6705 
I 

CITY 
F 

COUNTY 
MILTON 67 

STATE/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32616 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday Thursday I Friday I Saturday I Sunday 

Open 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am closed closed 

1,Amanda McClure PTech 

2. Kelly Ward PTech 
Close 4:30pm 4:30pm 

I 
4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 3. Derek Luke PTech 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Current pharmacypenn't displayed. 465.015(1)(a),F.S.] 26 AS medicinal drug R%s require date dispensed. 

140(3)(b)2,F.A.C.] U 
2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of current Rx departhient 

manager. 465.018,F.S.] 
27 Prescription records Identify the responsible dispensing pharmacists. 

140(3)(b)7,F.,A,C,] U 
3 Corrent DEA registration. 2ICFR 1301.11] 465.023(1)(c),F.Sj U 28 Complete pharmacy prescription records. 64616-28.140,F.A.C.3 
4 Rx department hours open for business are Posted and are a minimum U of 40 hours per week. (64816-28.404. F.AC,] 29 maintains patient profile records. (6481 6-27.800,F.A.C.] U 
5 Intems properly registered and supervised. 465.013,F.S.] U (6481 6-26.400(4),F.A.C.] 30 Controlled substance records readilyretilevabte. (893.07,F.S.] Z i:i 
6 Pharmacy technicians properly Identified and supervised. 

64B16-27.410,F.A.C.] 
31 Initials of pharmacist filling controlled substance Re. 

( 893.04(1)(c)9,F,5j 
7 Proper pharmacist technIcian ratio, If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has U 32 Prescribes name/address/DEA on all controlled substance Re. 

Board of Pharmacy approval. 64816-27.410] (64B16-27.420, F.A.C,] (893.04(lXo)2,F.S.] U 
8 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. U (64B16-27.100{t)F.A.C4 

. 

Patienfs name/address on controlled substance Re. 
893.04{l)(c)1,F.S.] Z U 

9 PharmacIst on duty when Re department open. 64B16-28.109,F.A.C. U 34 Date controlled substance Re was filled on Re. 
(893.04(lXc)6,F.5.] Z U 

10 Generic drug sign displayed. (465.025(7).F.S.) U 35 All controlled substance prescriptions must have: drug prescribed, 
quantity and directions for use. 1893.04(1l(c)4F.S.J Z U 

11 Sign displayed R.x Dept CloseC If establishment is open and Re U Depatiient closed. (64916-28.109(1),F.A.C.j 
36 Date of refills written on controlled substance Re or on computer records. 

893.04(lXc)6,F.S.] U 
12 SIgn with meal break hours of Pharmacist, (no more than half hour), and 

stating that a pharmacist is available on premises for consultation upon U U request. 64B16-27.400(6),r.A.C.] 

37 Pharmacists initials on controlled substance Re refills. 
893.04(1 X c)6,F.S.] U 

13 Sign destgnaUng the private patient consultation area 
1035,F.A.C.] 

, 

38 Controlled substance refils limited to 5 within 6 months from dale 
prescripton was signed. (893.04(lXg),F.5.] Z U 

14 Adequate written and verbal offer to counsel patents. 39 Controlled substance inventory taken one biennial basis and available z U 816-27.820,F.A.C.] . for inspection. 893.07(1)(a),F,5,] 
t5 Adequate patient counseling by pharmacist when offer is accepted. U (64B1 6-27.820,F.A.C.] 40 DEA 222 order forms properly completed. 893.07(2)F.S.] Z U 
16 Rx dept. has sink/running water convenient 10 Re dept Z U 64816-2B.102,F.A.C.) 

41 Controlled substance Re information in computer system Is rebtevable 
(CFR 1306.22] 893.07,F.S] 64B16-28.140,F.A.C.] ' U U 

17 Prescription department has drug refrigeration storage. U 16-28.104,FAC.] 
42 Controlled substance records maintained for 2 years. 

CFR 13D4.04& 893.07(4Xb),F.5) Z U 
18 Prescription departrTlentclean and safe. 64B16-26.1O5,F.A.C.! U 43 Sctsedule V drug records/sales properly kept 893.08(3Xa),F.S.] Z U 
19 Re balance and weights or electronic balance: counting tray or other e counfng device; assortment of graduates/spatulas/mortar and U pestles. (64816-28.107(2)(a-d),F.A.C.] 

. 

44 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as required by section. 
64816-25.140(3Xc)OR(e),F.A,Cp U U 

Z0 Current reference books and currant copy of laws and rules in hardcopy or in U 5 RegIstered pharmacist properly prescribing. (6481 6-27.21O,FA.C.] Z U U a readilyavailable etectrcnic data format 64816-28.107(1), F.A,C.] 

21 Medication 64816-27.101,F.A.Cj Z U 46 Compounding records propeilymaintained (64B16-28.14O(4),F.A.C.] *U Z U 
22 All Re medication within the Re department, (64916-28.120(1),F.A.C.] U 47 Unit dose records properly maintained ), F.A.C.] * U Z U 
23 COI Policy and Procedures and proot of quarterly meetings z U (protected under(766.101,F.S.] (64816-27,3C0. F.A.C.] — - —. - 
24 outdated pharmaceuticals removed from active stock. - U 16-28;110,F.A.C.] - Questions with C) maybe answered /a (not applicable). 
25 t'iscard on Re label. 64816-28.402(l)(h),F.A.C.] Z U 
Remaifl: #3 DEAexpires 9-30-2011. #5 NA. #7 Tech ratio letter 11-10-2005, #23 LastCOI 10-9-2009. #39 CS inventory 1-20-2009. #43 NA. #44 Printout. Re drug purchases 

from Mokesson-Lakeland and Medisca. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Michael Halfen, APh 

tnsUtudonal Representative 
N 359 RevIsed 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

I have read and have had this inspection reporl and the laws and regelatons concemed herein expia'ned, ard do affirm that the Information gwen herein is free aad correct to die best of my thowltdge. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

STERILE PRODUCTS AND SPECIAL-PARENTERAL 
ENTERAL COMPOUNDING PHARMACY 

ROUTINE LXfl NEW NOT CJPERATINO CIWIGE OWNER 0 
INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 PJ'JD CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENr 

WWW.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
GULF MEDICAL SERVICES, INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
18700 

DATE OF INSPECTION /2009 
DOING BUSINESS AS 
GULF MEDICAL VITAL CARE;GULF MEDICAL PHA 

DEA NUMBER 
BG7912771 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

MICHAEL W HALFEN STREET ADDRESS 
6776 CarolIne Sheet 

TELEPHONE # I EXT 
850-983-6705 

I 

CITY COUNTY 
MILTON SANTA ROSA 

/ZIP 
32570 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
32616 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST?INTERNIFECHNICIAN LICENSE # 
Monday Tuesday twednesdayl Thursday I Friday I Saturday I Sunday 

Open 8:30am 
I 

8:30am 8:30am 8:30am 8:30am oncall oncalt 
Close 4:30pm 430pm i 4:30pm 4:30pm 4:30pm 

Amanda Mcclure PTech 

KeIty Ward Plech 

3, Derek Luke FTech 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 
1 Current sterile products and special parenteral?enteralcompounding 

pharmacy permit displayed. (64B16-28.82. F.A.C.] Z 0 19 CurTont chapter of Florida Statutes: 465 and 499 and 893, and Board Rules 
(64B16-28.820(5)(e)1-4,F.A.C.] 0 

2 Board of Pharmacy notified in writing of curent departuient manager. 
(64B16-28.820(3Xa), F.AC.] C 20 CurrentUnited StatesPharmacopoeia & National Formulary or Remington 

Pharmaceutical Sciences or U.S. Dispensatory along with the latest 
supplemenlals or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the 
professional practice need of the pharmacy AND a current authoritative 
therapeutic reference. (64B16-28.820(5)(e)5,F.A. 

. 

3 Cunent DEA registration. (2ICFR 1301.11] (485.023(lgc),F.S.] C 
4 Pharmacist license/renewal certificate displayed. (84816'27.100(1).F.A.C,] Z C 21 Current edition of the Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Sodety of 

Healthsystem Pharrnacists.(64816-28.320(5)(e)G,F,A,C.] C 
5 tnlems properly registered and supervised. 465.013,F.S.j 

64a16-26.400,F.A.C.] Ci 
22 Pharmaceutical slock examined at least every four montim and 

deteriorated or outdated items removed. (64B16-28.11,F.A.C] C 
6 Proper pharmacist technician ratio. If 2:1 or 3:1 Pharmacy Manager has 

Board of Pharmacy approval. 64B16-27,410,F.A.C.] (64916-27,420,F.A.C.] 23 Medication properly labeled. (64B16-27.l01.F.A.Cj C 
7 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 916-27.400,F.A.C.l 

24 Dlscard After dale provided on prescltptlon label. 
(64BI628.402(lXh),F.A.C.] C 

25 Wrilten offer to counsel. (6481 6'27.820,F.A.C.] 

8 Prescription area set apart for sterile prescriptions from general 
worlQstorage area/adequately air-conditioned or under posltve pressure. 
(6491 6-28.820(SXb)1 ,F.A.C.] 

26 Special of prescriptions with telephone 
accessibilily to pharmacist at all hours. (6461 6.28.620(3Xb),r.A,C.] 

9 WorkIng sink convenient to the clean room, 
27 Licensed pharmacist certifies accuracy of final preparation and documents 

in a manner that responsibilIty can be traced to the pharmacist. Z C (6491 6-27.400(2){cxd),F.A.C.I 

10 RehgeratiorUfreezer?slnk/appropriate waste containers for used needles? 
syringes. 

28 I Policy and Procedures and proof of quarterly meetings 
(protected under 766.101,F.S] (64316-27.300,F.A,C.p C Z El 

11 Gloves/masks/gownstvailous standard sizes of needles/syringes? 
disinfectantcleaning agent!clean towels. (64816-28.620(5)(d)t-4,F,A.C.] 

29 Prescribers name/addresslDcA # on all controlled substance prescription. z o 893.D4(lxc)2,F,A.C.] 
12 Bacterial hand-washing materials/vacuum containers and various transfer 

C sets, "spill kits" for cytcloxic agent splits. 
30 InItials of pharmacist lilting controlled substance presolpuons on 

prescription. (893.04(1 )(c)6,F.S.] . Z 0 
13 Appropriate waste containers for all cytoloxic waste including apparel used z C In prescriptions. (64916—28.820(5)(c)4b,F.A.C.] 

3t Controlled substance Inventory taken on biennial basis and available for z C inspection. (893.07(1)(a),F.S.] 

14 Certified horizontal or vertical laminar airflow hood(s). 
(64816-28.82O(3Xe),FA.C.] C 32 OEA 222 orderfonuis properly completed. (893.07,F.S.] Z C 

15 Certified vertical laminar airflow hood used for oytotoxins. 
(64B16-28.820(3)(e),F.A.C.r C C 33 Certified daily log OR printout maintained as requited by section. (3xc) or (e)FAC.] 

+ 0 1 
34 Dispensing done pursuant to prescriptions with patient profiles mainlained, 

{64B16-28.820(3)(c), FA.C. 
. Z 0 

16,' Board approved policy and procedure manual avaIlable for inspection. ' 

8t628.820(3)(d,F.A.C.] 

1? Separate m?nual/equipmenvhanding procedures and protection for 
personnel if cytotoxic agents aredtspensed. (84918'28.820(3)(e). F.A.C C 35 Results of quality assurance program available for inspection. 

(64B16-28.82o(3)(D), F.A.C C 
18 "Practice Guidelines for Persorrnel Dealing WIth Cytotoxic Drugr. 

{64B16-28.820(SXe)7, F.A.C. . "Questions with may be answered n/a (not appitoablel. - 

Remarks: See community inspection form fordelalls. #12, #13, #15, & #18 NA 'No cytotoxins prepared. #14 Hoods certified 10-29-2009. 

I have read and have had this nspection report and the laws and regulations coreerned herein explained, and do atl'rm I the lrrfonnation herein is hue and correct to the best of my luiowtedge. 

,,!RINT NAME OF Michael Halfen, RPh , - 

File # 10801 

Insp# 88189 

—''-institutional RepresentaUve' 
NV 364 Revised 01/07 Replaces 12/02 

12-22-2009 
Date igator/Sr. Pharmacist SignatUth 

ID ci2O 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTh 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Fionda through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216646 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC 
2089 Sw 67TH AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33155 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 

Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

,/'B'àacd Executive Director 
/BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentoiHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX (850) 245-4791 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

vs. 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

CASE NO. 201216646 

NOTICE 

TO: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC 
11115W. OKEECHOBEE ROAD UNIT 101 
HIALEAH, FL 33018 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
4052 Bald Cypmss Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 
PHONE: (850)245-4444. FAX: (850) 245-4791 

www.FloridasHeafth.com 
TWIUER:HealthyFLA lth 

YOUflJBE: fldoh 

-I 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Executive 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 



Rick Scott Mission: - 
- Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health - 

of all people in Flodda through integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Swetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Determination of Waiver 
SUBJECT: DOH v. SAR Pharmacy Discount, Inc. 

DOH Case Number 2012-16646 

DATE: December 17, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: SAR Pharmacy Discount, Inc. 
Subject's Address of 2089 SW th Avenue 
Record: Miami, FL 33155 
Enforcement Address: 2089 sw Avenue 

Miami, FL 33155 
Additional Address: 11115 W. Okeechobee Road, Unit 101 

Hialeah, FL 33018 

Subjects License No: 25265 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 18184 

Initial Licensure Date: 2/16/2011 
Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: No 

Curi'ent IPN/PRN Contract:. No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.023(1)(c), -S. (2012), by violating a rule 
of the Board of Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule 
64B16-28.202(3), F.A.C. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: June 27, 2013 
Fallon and Glass 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Miami 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit 

TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin b 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOK:FL0epaftrentofi-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 'FAX 850/245-4683 - 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Determination of Waiver 
Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Exhibit B — Copy of certified mail receipt 
Exhibit C — Affidavit of diligent search 
Exhibit D — Proof of publication 
Exhibit E - Affidavit of Non-Receipt - Board Office 
Exhibit F - Affidavit of Non-Receipt - Agency Clerk's 
Office 
Motion to assess costs with 
Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Extended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 
Supplemental Investigative Report with Exhibits 
9/18/13 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 1 — 4 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 
Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S., by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a violation 
of Rule 64B16-28.202(3) 

$1,500 fine to Revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: INFORMAL HEARING 

This is an Administrative Complaint alleging a violation of Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida 
Statutes (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule 
64B16-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code, by failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in 
writing as to the effective date of closure, return the pharmacy permit to the Board of 
Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative Services of the Department 
to have the pharmacy permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and/or notify the Board of 
Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

On or about October 16, October 31, and November 7, 2012, a Department of Health 
inspector attempted to conduct a routine inspection of Respondent and discovered that 
Respondent's facility was closed and non-operational. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

• Revocation 
CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING 

THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

• The recommendation is appropriate and within the guidelines 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16646 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 

Respondent. 

______________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final 

Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been determined 

and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on June 

27, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as 

Petitioner's Exhibit A. 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights form, 

and Election of Rights form were sent to Respondent via certified US mail on: 

July 2, 2013 (7196 9008 9111 9326 6121). Service on Respondent via certified 

mail was not successful. A copy of the certified mail receipt and envelope is 

attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Thereafter, Petitioner requested personal service on Respondent, which 

was unsuccessful on August th, th, th, September th, and th, 2013. The 

affidavit of personal service is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Thereafter, Petitioner requested that the Community Newspapers 

publish a Legal Notice of Action beginning on October 7, 2013 and appearing 

consecutively on October th, and th, 2013. Petitioner received proof of 

publication on November 12, 2013, which is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit D. 

5. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

• persons seeking a hearing on an agency decision 
which does or may determine their substantial interests 
shall file a petition for hearing with the agency within 
21 days of receipt of written notice of the decision. 

6. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides that: 

Any person who received written notice of an agency 
decision and who fails to file a written request for a 

hearing within 21 days waives the right to request a 

hearing on such matters. 



7. Respondent has not filed an Election of Rights form, or any other 

responsive pleading, with Petitioner or the Board of Pharmacy within the 

required twenty-one (21) day period of time. Copies of affidavits supporting the 

same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits E & F. 

8. Based upon the foregoing, Respondent has waived the right to 

dispute any materials facts contained within the Administrative Complaint. 

Therefore, there are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by the 

Board. 

9. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a copy of 

the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, establishing a 

prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived the right to dispute any materials facts contained within 

the Mministratlve Complaint and enter a Anal Order imposing whatever 

dlsdpline upon Respondents license that the Board deems appropsiate. 



John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Kristal.beharry@doh.state.fl.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

CERTIFY that a 

been provided 
2013, 

Miami, FL 

true and correct 
by U.S. mail 

to: SAR Pharmacy 
33155 and 11115 

copy of above and 
this I day of 
Discount, Inc. at 2089 
W. Okeechôbee Road, 

I HEREBY 
foregoing hps 

flec€rnkw 
Southwest th Avenue, 
Unit 101, Hialeah, FL 33018. 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

C-) 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETIflOPJER, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16646 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 

RESPONDENT. 

I 
ADMINISTRATWE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Pharmacy against Responder-it, Sar Pharmacy Discount, Inc., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

permitted community pharmacy within the state of Florida, having been 

issued permit number PH 25265. 

— EXHIBIT 



3. Respondent's address of record is 2089 Southwest th Avenue, 

Miami, Florida 33155. 

4. On or about February 16, 2011, Respondent was issued a 

license to operate its pharmacy. 

5. on or about October 16, 2012, October 31, 2012, and 

November 7, 2012, a Department of Health inspector attempted to conduct 

a routine inspection of Respondent and discovered that Respondent's 

facility was closed and non-operational. 

6. Rule 64816-28.202(2), Florida Administrative Code, defines 

"closing of a pharmacy" as the cessation or termination of professional and 

business activities within a pharmacy for which a permit has been issued 

under Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. Rule 64616-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code, provides 

that prior to closure of a pharmacy, the permittee shall notify the Board of 

Pharmacy in writing as to the effective date of closure, return the 

pharmacy permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local 

Bureau of Investigative Services of the Department to have the pharmacy 

permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and notify the Board of 

Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

2 
DOH v, SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, . 
Case Nu,ter 2012-16646 



8. Respondent failed to do one or more of the following prior to 

closure: 

a. Notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing of 

Respondent's effective date of closure; 

b. Return or arrange to return the pharmacy permit; 

and/or 

c. Advise the Board of Pharmacy which permittee is to 

receive the prescription files. 

9. Section .023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes, or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy; of Chapter 499, 

Florida Statutes; of 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392; of 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et. seq.; or 

Chapter 893, Florida Statutes. 

10. As set forth above, Respondent failed to do one or more of the 

following prior to closure: 

a. Notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing of 

Respondent's effective date of closure; 

3 
DOll V. SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC. 
Case Number 20 12-16646 - 



b. Return or arrange to return the pharmacy permit; 

and/or 

c. Advise the Board Of Pharmacy which permittee is to 

receive the prescription files. 

11. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of 

Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule 64B16-28.202(3), Florida 

Administrative Code, by failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing 

as to the effective date of closure, return the pharmacy permit to the Board 

of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative 

Services of the Department to have the pharmacy permit returned to the 

Board of Pharmacy, and/or notify the Board of Pharmacy which permittee is 

to receive the prescription files. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

4 
DOH v, SAR PFIARI'lACy DISCOUNT, INC. 
Case Number 2012-16646 



billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

day of T1C4 11 , 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Msistant General Counsel 

FILED DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 

- Florida Bar # 0078070 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

PCP: 06/27/13 
PCP Members: Fallon & Glass 

S l v. SAR PHARMACY INC. 
Case Number 2012-16646 

j 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred Costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent In addition to any other discipline imposed. 

6 
DOH v. SAg hARMACY , INC. 
Case NumbEr 2012-16546 



7196 9111 9326 6121 

TO: 

Stip Pack 

Date Mailed 7/2/2013 
2012-1 6646 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

PS Form 3500, Janus 2005 

RETURN Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivet 

Total Postage & Fees 

usps. 
Receipt for 

Certified Mar 
No Insurance Coverage PreMed 
Do Not n br International MaJt 

Sar Pharmacy Discount 

POSTMARK OR DATE 



Sa
r 

L)
is

cu
w

JJ
t 

In
c.

 

S 
E

N
D

fl
 

=
 

C
 r 0 2:
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f t

he
 G

en
er

al
 C

ou
ns

el
 

P
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

S
er

v!
ce

s 
U

ni
t 

40
52

 B
al

d 
C

yp
re

ss
 W

ay
, 

B
in

 C
-6

5 

T
al

la
ha

ss
ee

, 
F

lo
rid

a 
32

39
9-

17
01

 
P

H
O

N
E

: 
85

01
24

5-
44

44
 

71
96

 
90

08
 

91
,1

1 
93

26
 

61
21

. 

N
IX

IE
 

V
 

:n
; 

. 

-u
 

I 

-3
 

I 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, D, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Department of Health 
Petitioner 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

vs 
Sar Pharmacy-Owner Voeli Salciuiero 

Case No. 2012-1 6646 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 8/27/13, 8/28/13, 8/29/13., 9/10/13, 9/11/13 , Afflant made a diligent effort to locate 
Respondent, to serve Administrative complaint packet and related papers at last known address of 2089 
SW th Avenue Miami, FL 33155 and a secondary address of 11115 W Okeechobee Road Unit 101 
Hialeah, FL 33018. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

xAfftant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing 
records on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area 
Respondent was known to frequent (d) Division of Drivers Licenses 

Neil Downs 
Affiant 

State Of Florida 
County Of Miami Dade 

Before me, personally appeared Neil Downs 
personally known (type of identification) and who, 
above. 

whose identity is known to me by 
acknowledges that his/her signature appears 

tSKRA CA'JATORTA 
Commission # FF 002218 
Expires March 26, 201? 
Bases II..s:u,c,. 

J 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

18th day of September 2013. Sworn to or affirme Affiant before me 

Notary Public-Stat of Florida 

Type or Print Name 

INv FORM 321 

My Commission Expires 

EXHIBFF 



A FREEAND INDEPENDENT NEWS. 4R VOICE 

COMMUNITY NEWSPAPERS 
PUBUSHED MONDAY 

MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE: 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared GEORGIA 
TAIT who on oath says she is OFFICE MANAGER of Legal Advertising 
of Community Newspapers, published Monday at Miami-Dade, Florida; 
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal Advertisement 
of Notice in the Matter of 

NOTICE OF ACTION 
THE LICENSE TO PRACTICE PHARMACY OF 
SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC. 
CASE NO. 2012-16646 

in the XXXXX Court, was published in said newspaper in the 
issue of 

10/07, 10/14, 10/21, 10/28/2013 

Affiant further says that the said Community Newspaper, published at 
Miami-Dade County, Florida, and that the newspaper has heretofore 
been continuously published in said Miami-Dade County, Florida, and 
has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in Mi- 
ami, Florida, Miami-Dade County, and additional mailing offices, for a 
period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached 
copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that she has neither paid 
nor promised any person, firm or corporation any rebate, commission 
or refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for 
in the said newspaper. 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION - 

AFFIANT 

!IEL LEGAL 

1012 ftM 9:flj 

- 

ThE BOARD OF 
. 

. . 

licanseto 

Diecdunl, 

Avenue 

JESUS C. TOLEDO 
Notary Pul1ic . Stale of Florida 

My Comm. Expires Apr 10, 2017 
Commission # EE 876555 

Bonded Through National Notary Assn. 

Community Newspapers 
6796 S.W. 62nd Avenue 

South Miami, Fllorida 33143 
305-669-7355 Ext. 228 • Fax: 305-662-6980 

• ñastrative 

cqptacting, 
•Asslstant 

(850) 
lfrno contact has been-made 
by you concemlhg the 

Noyembe 
matter 

the. 
Board °! Pharma4y..,ln- an S 

DisabiIitletAcl, 
persons needing a_special 

:individual or-agency 

'seven 
at the address 

onthe notce. Telephone: (850) 
245-4640, 1 -800-955-8771 
roD) 
via Flonda Relay Service. 
1 0/07, 10/f4, 10/21, /2013 

28TH 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

day of OCTOBER 2013. 

JESUS TOLEDO 

Dl Nothry Publici 

(SEAL) 

My commission Expires: 

Personally known.X. 

EXHIBIT 

i. 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & 

in Florida through integrated 

state, & efforts. 
John H. Annstrong, MD, EACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Stata In the NaUca 

I 

I, 

____________________________, 

hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy's licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy as of / 013 , has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or other 

responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action regarding CASE 

NAME: SAR Pharmacy Discount , CASE NUMBER: 2012-16646 which 

would affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

- CusSian of 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared Iii JRQ . whose identity is 

known to me 

________________________(type 

of identification) and who, under, 
U 

oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed this Li — day of 

______________ 

, 2013. 

LORMINE GIJflRY 

EXHIB Florida Department of Health 
ITTER:HeatthyFt.A 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-es ssee, FL 32399-1701 
of the General Counsel • Proseartion SeMces Unit 

www.FlorldasHealth.com loalth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row- Suite 105 

____________________ 

VOUTUSE: lldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850t245-4683 



Rick Scott 
Mission: I Governor 

lo protect, promole & improve the health - 

or all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. Stale Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Slate in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT 

$hcck.c'cs , Deputy Clerk for the Department Clerk's Office, 

hereby c�ify in my official capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's records, that the 

Department Clerk's Office has not received an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading, which requests a hearing prior to any Department action regarding Case Name: 

SAR Pharmacy Discount Inc. Case No.: , which would affect the 

Respondent's substantial interests or rights. 

• Record 
Department Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared I whose identity is known to me by 

personally known (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her 

signature appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this i of 2013. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

LAWANDA I 

I 

I 

161 

Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypressway, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Office ! the General Counsel • Services Unit 
ITTER:HeallhyFLA 

FACE Oepa Wnentofllealth Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — SuIte 105 
fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX /2454683 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16646 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 

Respondent. 

/ 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), Florida 

Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will 

enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed through 
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 



2001, pursuant to this section or discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 
July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is not board, 
shall assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are not 
limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other 
personnel working on the case, and any other 
expenses incurred by the department for the case. 
The board, or the department when there is no 
board, shall determine the amount of costs to be 
assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written objections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $1,689.02, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

E___________ Cost to Date ***** 

[ 
Hours Costs 1 

Complaint: 0.80 
Investigation: 

[ 
20.90 

Legal: 3.00 

Compliance: 
[ 

0.00 
Sub Total: 24.70] 
Expenses to 
Date: 
Prior $o.oo] 
Total Costs to 
Date: 

ei con 02 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $1,369.94 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and assess 

costs in the amount of $1,369.94 as supported by competent, substantial 

evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other discipline 

imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent in 

the amount of $1,369.94. 

3 



DATED this If day of 

________________, 

2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 0 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: @flhealth.gov 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

Motion to Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 1 day 
ba" of k1Ct.L" , 201_, to: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 2089 

Southwest 67th Ave., Miami, FL 33155, and 11115 W. Okeechobee Road, 

Unit 101, Hialeah, FL 33018. 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 201 2-1 6646 (Department of Health v. SAR 
PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC.) are ONE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED 
EIGHTY-NINE DOLLARS AND TWO CENTS ($1,689.02). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 2012-1 6646 (Department of Health 
v. SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 

(Cost Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 201 2-1 6646 
(Department of Health v. SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC.) are 
detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

I of2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 8 day of 

_____________, 

2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

Notary Signature 

ame of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

- 
2016 

2 of 2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number; 201216646 

rage i or i 

I 

Subject's Name: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, NC 

[ 
***** Cost to Date 

[ [ 
Hours Costs 

Complaint: 
[ 

0.80 $43.92 

investigation; 20$( SI ] 
Legal: 

I 
$319.081 

Compliance: 
] 

so.ool 

Sub Total: 24.70] 1,689.02 

Expenses to Date: so.ooj 

Prior Amount: 1 1 
Total Costs to Date; 

1 I fl 1 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 12/17/20 13 

I 



D
iv

is
io

n 
ci

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

uo
lil

y 
A

ss
m

on
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

iL
 \ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

16
64

6 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
17

12
01

3 
P

ag
e 

I 
of

2 

S
ta

fiC
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 H

ou
rs

 
S

ta
ll 

R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

1A
23

 
0.

80
 

$5
4.

90
 

$4
3.

92
 

11
/1

4/
20

12
 

78
 

IS
O

F
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
S

ub
 T

ot
al

 
0.

80
 

$4
3.

92
 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

12
07

 
0.

60
 

$6
1.

19
 

$3
6.

71
 

11
/2

1/
20

12
 

76
 
IO

N
 

M
I2

07
 

07
0 

$6
1.

19
 

$4
2.

83
 

11
/2

7/
20

12
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
M

I2
07

 
1.

30
 

$6
1.

19
 

$7
9.

55
 

11
/2

7/
20

12
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
L 

T
IM

E
 

12
07

 
0.

80
 

$6
1.

19
 

$4
8.

95
 

11
/2

7/
20

12
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

07
 

0.
60

 
$6

1.
19

 
$3

6.
71

 
11

/2
8/

20
12

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
07

 
0.

70
 

$6
3.

98
 

$4
4.

79
 

12
/0

5/
20

 1
2 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
12

07
 

1.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$8

3.
17

 
12

/0
5/

20
12

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

M
I2

07
 

0.
80

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

1.
18

 
12

/0
5/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

12
07

 
0.

70
 

$6
3.

98
 

$4
4.

79
 

12
/0

5/
20

 1
2 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

07
 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
12

/1
3/

20
12

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

M
I2

07
 

0.
40

 
$6

3.
98

 
$2

5.
59

 
12

/2
7/

20
 1

2 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
07

 
0.

60
 

$6
3.

98
 

$3
8.

39
 

01
/1

6/
20

 1
3 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
M

I2
07

 
2.

10
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
34

.3
6 

02
/1

8/
20

 1
3 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

1O
N

 
M

I2
07

 
1.

50
 

$6
3.

98
 

$9
5.

97
 

03
/1

5/
20

 1
3 

7 
P

R
E

LI
M

IN
A

R
Y

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

M
I2

07
 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
08

/2
7/

20
 1

3 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
iO

N
 

12
07

 
1.

60
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
02

.3
7 

08
/2

7/
20

13
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

IM
E

 
12

07
 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
08

/2
8/

20
 1

3 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

M
I2

07
 

1.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
$7

0.
38

 
08

/2
8/

20
13

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

12
07

 
0.

70
 

$6
3.

98
 

$4
4.

79
 

08
/2

9/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
12

07
 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
09

/1
0/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

E
X

N
IB

IT
 

12
07

 
1.

40
 

$6
3.

98
 

$8
9.

57
 

09
/1

0/
20

13
 

58
 

T
R

A
V

E
L 

T
IM

E
 

M
I2

07
 

,4
0 

$6
3.

98
 

$2
5.

59
 

09
/I 

1/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
12

07
 

0.
80

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

1.
18

 
09

/1
1/

20
13

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 
12

07
 

0.
50

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

1.
99

 
09

/1
8/

20
13

 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

LI
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
--

 
ile

m
iz

ed
eo

st
 



ci
 

M
ed

ic
al

 O
uc

lil
y 

A
ss

u,
on

ce
 

C
O

 N
 F

ID
 E

 N
T

 IA
L

 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

12
16

64
6 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- E

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

--
 

te
m

iz
ed

co
st

 

S
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
12

/1
7/

20
13

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 u
rs

 
S

ta
ff 

R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

20
.9

0 
$1

,3
26

.0
2 

P
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 2

 

I-
IL

L9
O

A
 

0.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$3

1.
91

 
01

/1
8/

20
13

 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L
 R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S 

O
F 

C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

H
LL

9O
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

02
/1

2/
20

13
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

LL
A

N
E

O
U

S
 

I-
IL

L9
O

A
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
05

/0
3/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

S
E

 F
IL

E
 

H
LL

9O
A

 
0.

90
 

$1
06

.3
5 

59
5.

72
 

05
/0

7/
20

13
 

28
 

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

O
A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

06
/2

7/
20

13
 

68
 

S
IG

N
IN

G
 C

LO
S

IN
G

 O
R

D
E

R
S

, 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
1N

T
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
A

S
O

N
A

B
 

H
LL

9O
A

 
0.

70
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$7
4.

45
 

07
/0

2/
20

13
 

90
 

P
O

S
T

P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
C

A
U

S
E

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
IN

G
 

O
A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

08
/0

6/
20

13
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

LL
A

N
E

O
U

S
 

H
LL

9O
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

09
/2

4/
20

13
 

10
3 

R
E

V
IE

W
 S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

3.
00

 
$3

19
.0

8 



D
uv

im
on

 
**

* 
C

O
 N

 F
 I

D
 E

N
 T

 I
A

 L
 

M
ed

ic
al

 C
uc

ili
ly

 t
.s

sL
zl

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

'V
t \ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e;
 

12
/1

71
20

13
 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
! 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Su
bT

ot
al

 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: MIAMI XI Date of Case: 11/8/12 Case Number: PH 2012-16646 
Subject: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC Source: IISU-MIAMI 

2089 Sw 67th Ave 
Miami, FL 33155 

(305)263-5800 

Prefix: 2205 License #:25265 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date:9/18/13 
P harrnacy 

Period of Investigation: 8/26/1 3-9/18/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 1 

Alleged violation : SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: 
This supplemental investigation is predicated upon receipt of a request from KRISTAL BEHARRY ESQ, 
Senior Attorney with DOH PSU. The request was to serve an AC packet and related papers to SAR 
PHARMACY owner YOELI SALGUIERO at her last known address of 2089 Sw 67th Ave Miami, FL 33155 

On 8/27/1 3, this investigator presented to SARs last known address and was not able to serve owner 
SALGUIERO as a new business was open at location. A search of various online databases showed a 
secondary residential address for SALGUIERO of 11115W Okeechobee Road Unit 101 Hialeah, FL 33018 
this address was attempted with no success on 8/25/13, 8/29/13, 9/10/13, and 9/11/13. Phone number 
found for SALGUIERO 305-885-3284 was attempted, no answer was received when calls were attempted. 
As of the date of this report no response has been received from SALGUIERO. 

Exhibits: 
SI- Copy of affidavit of service for SAR PHARMACY ) 
Related Case(s): 2012-16637 

Investigator/Dat September 18, 2013 

Neil Do&ns Investigator Ml-207 

Approved By/Date: ptember 18 2013 

Edward Thompson Manage 
Distribution; HQ/ISU Page 1 

7 
\Ld 

- 

j 
NV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

— V 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Suigeon General & Secretary 

Department of Health 
Petitioner 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 
4 

vs 
Sar Pharmacy-Owner Yoeli Salcjuiero 
Respondent 

Case No. 2012-16646 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 8/27/13, 8/28113, 8/29/13. 9/10/13, 9/11/13 Affiant made a diligent effort to locate 
Respondent, to serve Administrative complaint packet and related papers at last known address of 2089 
SW Avenue Miami, FL 33155 and a secondary address of 11115 W Okeechobee Road Unit 101 
Hialeah, FL 33018. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

xAffiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing 
records on the computer terminal or Board off ce; (c) Local telephone company for the last area 
Respondent was known to frequent (d) Division of Drivers Licenses 

Neil Downs ' 
Affiant 

State Of Florida 
County Of Miami Dade 

Before me, personally appeared 
personally known (type of identification) 
above. 

Sworn to or affirme Affiant before me this - 

Notary Public-Stat of Florida 

sveet 
Type or Print Name 

INV FORM 321 

Neil Downs whose identity is known to me by 
and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears 

Efl 

18th day of September 2013. 

ica 
HEALTH 

My Commission Expires ISKRA CA'/AT0RrA 
Commission # FF 1g 
Expires March 26, 20i 7 

TJVu POy rUJ 

EXHIBIT 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Sar Pharmacy Discount, Inc., (KB) 
Case Number: 2012-16646 

MEMBERS: Lee Fallon and Debra Glass 

DATE OF PCP: June 27, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-7 
This matter canie before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, 
through a violation of Rule 64B16-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code; 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, disiniss 

other 

/2 
Chair, Cause Panel Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



l INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: MIAMI XI Date of Case: 11/08/2012 Case Number: PH 201 2-16646 
Subject: 
SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT INC 
2089 Sw 67th Ave 
Miami, FL 33155 
(305)263-5800 

Source: 
DOH/ISU 

Prefix: 
2205 

t. 

Period of Investigation:1 1/16/12-1/15/13 Type of Report: FINAL 

Alleged Violation: Possible violation of 55. 456.072(1 )(k)(l)(dd), 465.016(1 )(j)(r), 
465.0123(1)(c), F.S. and Rule 64B16.28.101(1), 64B16-28.1081 and 64516- 
28.202(3)(a)(b)(4)(b), F.A.C. Faiture to perform statutory/legal obligation; Failure to be 
available for inspection; Failure to operate 5 days/40 hours per week; Failure to notify 
Board of closure 
Synopsis: 
This investigation is predicated upon receipt of an internally generated pharmacy 
inspection alleging that on 10/16/12, 10/31/12 and 11/7/12 a routine inspection was 
attempted at SAR Pharmacy and Discount Inc (PH 25265). located at 2089 SW 67th Aye, 
Miami, FL 33155, the pharmacy was closed and appeared non-operational. The DOll 
database reflected that a closure had not been reported by the owner YOELI SALGUEIRO 
who is not licensed. 

SAR was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 11/16/12 (Exhibit #2) and was 
provided a copy of the CASE SUMMARY and initiating documents from Exhibit #1. 

No patients were identified thus no notification was necessary 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that SAR possesses a clear and active 
license as a community pharmacy. 

SAR is not known to be represented by an attorney. 

SAR's owner YOELI SALGUEIRO executed a voluntary relinquishment on 12/18/12 

Related Case(s): 2012-16637 

Ée wns Inves gator Ml-207 Edward Thompson 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 
H l 

JAN U 
H 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-16646 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

I. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 : 
Statement of DAVID WARSHOFSKY, INVESTIGATOR, MIAMI ISU (SOURCE) 3 
Statement of YOELI SALGUEIRO, OWNER SAR PHARMACY LLC (SUBJECT) 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and initiating documents 4-7 

2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 11/16/12 8 

3. Copy of letter from property landlord and attached license documents 9-23 

4. Copy of executed VR for ACOSTA 24-26 

Page 2 



DON INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-16646 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 
On 12118112 this investigator received a copy of 's executed VR (Exhibit #4). Copy 
of VR was emailedto PSU as per desk guide guidelines on 12/18/12. 

On 12/13/12 this investigator was able to speak with landlord BERNIE NAVARRO. 
NAVARRO provided access to pharmacy location to this investigator. This 
investigator was able to observe that location contained no medications and 
appeared abandoned. 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 contains the Case Summary and initiating documents. 

Exhibit #2 Copy of Notification letter, dated 11/16/12 

Exhibit #3 Copy of Sunbiz profile for SAR 

Exhibit #4 Copy of executed VR for ACOSTA 

Statement of DAVID WARSHOFSKY, INVESTIGATOR, MIAMI ISU ) 
Employment 
8350 NW Terrace Suite 400 
Miami, FL 33166 
(305)470-5800 

On 11/16/12, this investigator was able to speak with WARSHOFSKY in the Miami ISU 
office. He states that she does not have any additional information regarding the initial complaint 
beyond what is stated in the initial complaint form (Exhibit #1). 

Statement of YOELI SALGUEIRO, OWNER SAR PHARMACY LLC ) 
Employment 
2089 SW th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33155 
(305)263-6632 

On 12/18/12 this investigator was able to speak with SALQUIERO when she presented to Miami 
ISU office. SALGUIERO executed a voluntary relinquishment (Exhibit #4) of the pharmacy license 
#25266 for SAR PHARMACY LLC. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


A DEI'ARTMEWF OP 

Rick Scott John Armstrong M.D. 
Governor State Surgeon General 

November 16, 2012 

CONFIDENTIAL TO: 
Voeli Salpueiro-Owner 
Sar Pharmacy Discount Inc 
11115W Okeechobee Rd Unit 101 
Hialeah, FL 33018 

Case Number: 2012-16646 

Dear Sar Pharmacy Discount nc: 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This 
investigation was initiated after it was determined that you may have violated the Pharmacy Practice Act. 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

O submit a written response to the address below; or 
* call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to 
submit a response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days after 
the Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general 
public. You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when 
the investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to the information in the 
investigative file within 20 days of receipt. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it wilt take to complete this investigation 
because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect and promote the health of all residents and visitors 
in the state through organized state and community efforts, including cooperative agreements with 
counties. If you have any questions please call us at (305)470-5897. In addition, if you have any 
concerns or suggestions about our complaint process, please fill-out our Customer Concerns or 
Suggestions form at 

Sincerely, 

Neil Downs 
Medical Malpractice Investigator 

IND 
Enclosure 

InVFôrn, 354 Division of Medical Quality Assurance, Investigative Services Unit 
Revised 10/10, 10/07 8350 NW Terrace Suite 400* Doral, FL 33166 
Created 06/07 Telephone Number (305)470-5897 In Visit us line at www.doh.state,tl,us * MQA Enforcement 

' 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 

Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2012-06637 & 
2012-16646 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT INC 

Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY REUNOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT INC license number PH 25266 by and through its 
owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, hereby voluntarily relinquishes 

Respondent's permit to operate a community pharmacy and special Close Pharmacy in the 

State of Florida and states 

as follows: 
1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment is to avoid further 

administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, 

YOEU SALGUEIRO, understands that acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the 

Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed as disciplinary action against 

Respondent's permit pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent and its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, agree to never reapply for 

a pharmacy permit in the State of Florida. 

3. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, agrees to 

voluntarily cease operating as a community pharmacy ,imrpediately upon executing this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, 

further agrees to refrain from operating as a community pharmacy until such time as this 



Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to the Board and the Board issues a written final order in 

this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in a 

public meeting, Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGIJEIRO, being fully 

advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of 

Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a determination of probable cause, by the 

Probable Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), 

Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of the Department of Health, and 

all other information obtained pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled 

action. By signing this waiver, Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, 

understands that the record and complaint become public record and remain public record and 

that information is immediately accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent, by and 

through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, 

or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final 

Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, 

hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall 

bear its own attorney's fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, authorizes the 

Board to review and examine all investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection 

• with the Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent, by and through its 

owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and 

other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of its 



members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these proceedings if the terms 

of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

_________ 

/Y 

AR PHARMA ISCOU INC 
by and through its Owne if cer, YOEU 

Before me, personally appeared 

__________________ 

whose identity is known to me by 

DL (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that 

his/her signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

______ 

day of 

_____________________ 

2012. 

I A 

NØTARY 
My Commission Expires: 

2012 DATED this / day of 

STATE OF FLORIDA } 
} 

COUNTY OF DADE } 

YOEU SALGUEIRO. 

ENEICE 

? EF 



HEALTH Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To prntect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in thrnugh integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon Genemi & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216637 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC 
2089 Sw 67TH AVE 
MIAMI, FL 33155 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 am. Although the Respondent is not required 

to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 

Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 am.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Director 

if BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Gb Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentoft-Iealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 . FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201216637 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC 
11115 W. OKEECHOBEE ROAD UNIT 101 
HIALEAH, FL 33018 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 

to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 

Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Director' 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITIER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentotHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 . FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Mission 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Govemor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

MEMORANDUM 
Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
Kristal Beharry, Assistant General Counsel 
Determination of Waiver 
DOH v. SAR Pharmacy Discount, Inc. 
DOH Case Number 2012-16637 

DATE: December 18, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: 
Subject's Address of 
Record: 
Enforcement Address: 

SAR Pharmacy Discount, Inc. 
2089 SW th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33155 
2089 SW th Avenue 
Miami, FL 33155 
11115 W. Okeechobee Road, Unit 101 
Hialeah, FL 33018 

25266 Rank: PH 

18155 

2/16/2011 

None 

No 

No 

Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating a rule 
of the Board of Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule 
64B16-28.202(3), F.A.C. 

None 

June 27, 2013 
Fallon & Glass 

Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: - Department of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Miami 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel - Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245.4683 

lth.com 
TWIUER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDeparUnentofHealth 
YOUTU8E: lldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be The Healthiest State in the Nation 

TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 
SUBJECT 

Additional Address: 

Subject's License No: 

Licensure File No: 
Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 
Current IPN/PRN Contract: 
Allegation(s): 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Subject's Attorney: 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Determination of Waiver 

Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Exhibit B — Copy of certified mail receipt 

Exhibit C — Affidavit of diligent search 

Exhibit D — Proof of publication 

Exhibit E — Board Affidavit 

Exhibit F — Clerk Affidavit 
Motion to assess costs with 

Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs 

Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 

Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 

Supplemental Investigative Report 9/18/13 

PCP Memo 

Final Investigative Report Exhibits 1 —4 

Disciplinary Guidelines: 
Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S., by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a violation 
of Rule 64B16-28.202(3) 

$1,500 fine up to Revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: INFORMAL HEARING 

This is an Administrative Complaint alleging a violation of Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida 
Statutes (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule 
64B16-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code, by failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in 
writing as to the effective date of closure, return the pharmacy permit to the Board of 
Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative Services of the Department 
to have the pharmacy permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and/or notify the Board of 
Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

On or about October 16, October 31, and November 7, 2012, a Department of Health 
inspector attempted to conduct a routine inspection of Respondent and discovered that 
Respondent's facility was closed and non-operational. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 

• Revocation 
CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING 

THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

• The recommendation is appropriate and within the guidelines 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16637 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final 

Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been determined 

and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on June 

27, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as 

Petitioner's Exhibit A. 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Explanation of Rights form, 

and Election of Rights form were sent to Respondent via certified US mail on: 

July 2, 2013 (7196 9008 9111 9326 6114). Service on Respondent via certified 

mail was not successful. A copy of the certified mail receipt and envelope is 

attached as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Thereafter, Petitioner requested personal service on Respondent, which 

was unsuccessful on August th, th, th September th, and th, 2013. The 

affidavit of personal service is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit C. 

4. Thereafter, Petitioner requested that the Community Newspapers 

publish a Legal Notice of Action beginning on October 7, 2013 and appearing 

consecutively on October th, g, and th, 2013. Petitioner received proof of 

publication on November 12, 2013, which is attached as Petitioner's Exhibit D. 

5. Rule 28-106.111(2), Florida Administrative Code, provides in 

pertinent part that: 

• . persons seeking a hearing on an agency decision 
which does or may determine their substantial interests 
shall file a petition for hearing with the agency within 
21 days of receipt of written notice of the decision. 

6. Rule 28.106.111(4), Florida Administrative Code, provides that: 

Any person who received written notice of an agency 
decision and who fails to file a written request for a 

hearing within 21 days waives the right to request a 

hearing on such matters. 



Respondent has not filed an 

pleading, with Petitioner or 

required twenty-one (21) 

same are attached hereto 

8. Based upon 

dispute any materials 

Therefore, there are no 

Board 

has waived the right to 

Administrative Complaint. 

fact to be resolved by the 

7. 

responsive 

Election of Rights form, or any other 

the Board of Pharmacy within the 

day period of time. Copies of affidavits supporting the 

as Petitioner's Exhibits E & F 

the foregoing, Respo 

facts contained within 

disputed issues 

ndent 

the 

of material 

9. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a copy of 

the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, establishing a 

prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived the right to dispute any materials facts contained within 

the Administrative Complaint and enter a Final Order imposing whatever 

discipline upon Respondent's license that the Board deems appropriate. 



John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Kristal.beharry@doh.state.fl.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY 
foregoing has 

be n - CERTIFY that a 

been provided 
—, 2012, 
Miami, FL 

true and correct 
by U.S. mail 

to: SAR Pharmacy 
33155 and 11115 

copy of !J'c above and 
this day of 
Discount, Inc. at 2089 
W. Okeechobee Road, 

Kristal Beharry ) 
Assistant General Counsel 

Southwest th Avenue, 
Unit 101, Hialeah, FL 33018 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

4 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16637 
SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, 

I 
COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 
Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Sar Pharmacy Discount, Inc., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state charged with regulating the 
practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 
456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

permitted special closed system pharmacy within the state of Florida, 
having been issued permit number PH 25266. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 2089 Southwest th 
Avenue, 

Miami, Florida 33155. 

4. On or about February 16, 2011, Respondent was issued a 

license to operate its pharmacy. 

5. On or about October 16, 2012, October 31, 2012, and 
November 7, 2012, a Department of Health inspector attempted to conduct 
a routine inspection of Respondent and discovered that Respondent's lity was closed and non-operational 

6. Rule 64316-28.202(2), Florida Administrative Code, defines 
"closing of a pharmacy" as the cessation or termination of professjonaj and 
business activities within a pharmacy for which a permit has been issued 
under Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. Rule 64816-28.202(3), Florida Administrative Code, provides 
that prior to closure of a pharmacy the permjftee shall notify the Board of 
Pharmacy in writing as to the effective date of closure, return the 
pharmacy permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange h the local 
Bureau of Investigative Services of the Department to have the pharmacy 
permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy, and notify the Board of 
Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files. 

2 
DOFf v. $AR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC. 
Case Number 2012-16537 



8. Respondent failed to do one or more of the following prior to 
closure: 

a. Notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing of 

Respondent's effective date of Closure; 

b. Return or arrange to return the pharmacy permit; 

and/ar 

c. Advise the Board of Pharmacy which permiftee is to 

receive the prescription flies. 

9. Section 3(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 
the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 
and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 
permittee who has violated any of the of Chapter 465, Florida 
Statutes, or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy; of Chapter 499, 
Florida Statutes; of 21 u.s.c. 301-392; of 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et. seq.; or 
Chapter 893, Florida Statutes. 

10. As set forth above, Respondent failed to do one or more of the 
following prior to closure: 

a. Notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing of 
Respondent's effective date of closure; 

3 
DON V. SAR Pi-IWIACY , 
Case Number 2012-16637 



b. Return or arrange to return the pharmacy permit; 

and/or 

c. Advise the Board Df Pharmacy which permfttee is to 

receive the prescription files. 

11. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 
5.023(1)(c) Florida Statutes (201 2), by violating a rule of the Board of 
Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule ) Florida 
Administrative Code, by failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing 
asto the effective date of closure, retuth the pharmacy permit to the Board 
of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative 
Services of the Department to have the pharmacy permit returned to the 
Board of Pharmacy, and/or notify the Board of Pharmacy which permittee is 
to receive the prescription files. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 
Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 
permanent revocation or suspension of license, restriclion of 
practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 
placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

4 ll v. 5M PHARMACy DISCOUNT C 
Case Number 2012-16537 



billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this Junt 
. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

DEPARTMEJgF HEALTH Assistant General Counsel 
DEPUTY CLERK DOH Prosecution Services Unit CLERK 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 DATE N 27 2013 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
florida Bar # 07Q 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

/ KB 

PCP: 06/27/13 
PCP Members: Fallon & Glass 

S 
DOFf v. SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, 
Case Ntonber 20t2-16G37 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.559 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine withesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigauon and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

6 
DON v. SAR PHARMACY D!SC0ur4r, INC 
Case Number 2012-16637 



7196 9008 9111 932L 611q 

TO: 

Stip Pack 
Cassandra/Beharry 
Date Mailed 7/2/2013 
2012-16637 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

Sar Pharmacy Discount 

L PS Form 3800, January 2005 

RETURN Postage 
RECEIPT Certified Fee 
SERVICE 

____________________ 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restricted Delivery 

Total Postage & Foes 

USPS! POSTMARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 
Certified Mair 
No Insurance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use tar Intemelional Mek 

— EXHIBIT 



0 I 

-ø
 

—
4 -4
 0 1 

çt
i 0 

hr
ø

ø
t;a

 

E
A

LT
H

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 
P

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

U
ni

t 
40

52
 B

al
d 

C
yp

re
ss

 W
ay

, 
B

in
 C

-6
5 

T
al

la
ha

ss
ee

 F
lo

rid
a 

32
39

9-
11

01
 

P
H

O
N

E
: 
-4

44
4 

71
96

 
91

11
 

¶ U
. - 

93
26

 
61

14
 

.. 
. 

II 

/ 
0
7
/
2
7
/
1
3
 

" 
N

IX
IE

 
t
5
5
3
2
3
1
1
N
 

R
E
T
U
R
N
 

T
O

 

T
ø

 
P

O
R

W
A

R
D

 

R
E
T
U
R
N
 

T
O

 
S
E
N
D
E
R
 

I
 

I 
I 

1 

a 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Department of Health 
Petitioner 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR bILIGENT SEARCH 

vs 
Sar Pharmacy-Owner Voeli Salciuiero 

Case No. 2012-16637 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Afflant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 8127113, 8/28/13, 8/29/13, 9/10/13, 9/11/13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate 
Respondent, to serve Administrative complaint packet and related papers at last known address of 2089 

Avenue Miami, FL 33155 and a secondary address of 11115 W Okeechobee Road Unit 101 
Hialeah, FL 33018. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

xAffiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing 
records on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area 
Respondent was known to frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses 7 9 Neil Downs 
Affiant ' 
State Of Florida 
County Of Miami Dade 

Before me, personally appeared Neil Downs 
personally known (type of identification) and who, 
above. 

•whose identity is known to me by 
acknowledges that his/her signature appears 

"4_ 

HEALTH 

Sworn to or by Affiant before me 'this 18th day of September 2013. 

Type or Print Name 

My Commission 

ISKRA CAVATORTA 
commission FF002218 

- Expires March 26,2017 
Gords F.bfr,,wvc, &O385-7OIg 

I EXHIBIT -, 

INVFORM321 
EXHtB%T 



A FREE AND INDEPENDENT NEWt 

COMMUNITY NEWSPAPERS 
PUBLISHED MONDAY 

MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE: 

• rr-.p I 

13NOV12 AM 

JESUS TOLEDO 

of Natty Pubik)' 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF 
PHARMACY 

IN RE: license to practice 
pharmacy of 

SAR Pharmacy Discount, 
Inc. 

• 089Southwaat 67th Avenue 
Miami, Florida 33155-: 

11115W. Okeechabee Road. 
Unit 101 
Hlaloat,, florida 33018 

Department of keatth 
has flied -an Administrative 
Complaint against you,- a.copy - 

at which may be obtained by 
contacting, Kristal Beharry - 

Assistant General Counsel, 
Prosecution Services Unit, 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 
#065, Tallahassee. Florida 
32399-3266,- (850)245-4444. - 

It no contact has been made 
by you concerning the above 
by November25. 2013, the 
matter of the Administrative- 

I Complaint will be presented - 

alan ensuing.meeting-of4he 
I 

Board 01 Pharmacy in an 
informal proceeding. 

with the AmeN 
icàns with Disabilities Act. - 

persons neediflg .a special 
accommbdatbn to-partcipate 
in this.proceeding-should con- - 

tact the individual or agency I 

'sending notice not later than 
seven days prior .10 the pro- 
ceeding at the address given 
on.tha notice. Tdephone: (850) 
245-4640, 1-800-955-8771 
(TDD) or I -500-955-8770(V), 
via Florida Relay Service. - 

10/07, -10/14, 10/21, 
' 

cASE 
LICENSE NO;: PH 25288 

(SEAL) 

My Commission Expires: 

JESUS C. TOLEDO 

Notary Public - State of Florida 
: 4 My Comm. Expires Apr 10, 2017 

%% 
;4s 

Commission # EE 876555 
Bonded Through NaUonal Notary Ason 

I 

Community NOWSpapeTS 

6796 SW. 62nd Avenue 
South Miami, Flloride 33143 

305-669-7355 ExL 228 • Fax: 305-662-6980 

NOTICE 1ON 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared GEORGIA 
TAIT who on oath says she is OFFICE MANAGER of Legal Advertising 
of Community Newspapers, published Monday at Miami-Dade, Florida; 
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal Advertisement 
of Notice in the Matter of 

NOTICE OF ACTION 
THE LICENSE TO PRACTICE PHARMACY OF 
SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC. 
CASE NO. 2012-16637 

in the XXXXX Court, was published in said newspaper in the 
issue of 

10/07, 10/14, 10/21, 10/28/2013 

Affiant further says that the said Community Newspaper, published at 
Miami-Dade County, Florida, and that the newspaper has heretofore 
been continuously published in said Miami-Dade County, Florida, and 
has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in Mi- 
ami, Florida, Miami-Dade County, and additional mailing offices, for a 
period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached 
copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that she has neither paid 
nor promised any person, fin-n or corporation any rebate, commission 
or refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication 
in the said newspaper. 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION - 

IANT 

28TH 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

day of OCTOBER 2013. 

Personally knownX 1T 
I 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor To protect promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

Ii 0 leinFloddathrou hint rated otaateiit John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS $ • 

' HEALTH StateSurgeonGcneral&Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

tsy . hereby certify in my official capacity as 

custodian for the Board of Pharmacy's licensure files that the Board of Pharmacy as of 

/cf 
13 , has no evidence of an Election of Rights form or other 

responsive pleading requesting a hearing prior to any agency action regarding CASE 

NAME: SAR Pharmacy Discount Inc., CASE NUMBER: 2012-16637 which 

would affect the Subject's substantial interests or rights. 

a 
offtecor4 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Before me, personally appeared 

_________________________, 

whose identity is 

known to me n (type of identification) and who, under, 

oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 
-k 

Sworn to and subscribed this I I day of - , 2013. 

/7. _ 
Notary a 

I 

WRaØJNE GM. CURRY 

EXPIRES: May26. 2015 
Pubic 

EXHIBIT Florida Department of Health .lth.com of the General Counsel• Services Unit 
TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 1ealth Express malt address: 2585 Merchanls Row — Sufte 105 

____________________ 

YOUTUBE: fdoh PHONE: 850/245.4444 • FAX 850/245.4683 



Rick Scott Mission: - 

Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of alJ people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Ar.nstrouig, MD, FACS stale, county & community efforts. - 

State Surgeon General & Secretary HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT 

(3 , Deputy Clerk for the Department Clerk's Office, 

hereby cellify in my official capacity as custodian for the Department Clerk's records, that the 

Department Clerk's Office has not received an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading, which requests a hearing prior to any Department action regarding Case Name: 

SAR Pharmacy Discount. Inc. Case No.: , which would affect the 

Respondent's substantial interests or rights. 

of Record 
Department Clerk's Office 

Before me, personally appeared whose identity is known to me by 

personally known (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her 

signature appears above.. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this of 2013. 

tary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

LAWAPIDAMBELL 1 

MY COMMISSION # EEIm7O5I I 6 
I 

.- 015a Fff4iN@arysesyjoe.co,,, I 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealthconi 
Office of the General Counsel • ProsecuDon Services Unit 

TWtTTER:HeaithyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way Bin llahassee, FL 1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 FAX 85012454683 

FACE 800$: lmentotHea Ith 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-16637 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 

Respondent. 

/ 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), Florida 

Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will 

enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed through 
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 



2001, pursuant to this section or discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 
July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is not board, 
shall assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are not 
limited to, salaries and benefits of , costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other 
personnel working on the case, and any other 
exoenses incurred by the deoartment for the case. 
The board, or the department when there is no 
board. shall determine the amount of costs to be 
assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written objections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $1,738.23, based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: _ *****CosttoDate***** 
Hours Costs 

Complaint: i.ooM $54.90 
Investigation: I $1,334.l11 
Legal: 3.30 

Compliance: 0.00 l 
Sub Total: 25.30 $1,738.231 
Expenses to 
Date: t 
Prior Amount: 

[ 
$0.00 

Total Costs to 
Date: $1,738.23 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $1,389.01 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and assess 

costs in the amount of $1,389.01 as supported by competent, substantial 

evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other discipline 

imposed by the Board and is in accordanèe with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent in 

the amount of $1,389.01. 

3 



DATEDth1s 

__ 

day of Uec.crnber . 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No.0078070 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Kristal.beharry@flhealth.gov 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this day 

of bQi , 201_, to: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC., 2089 

Southwest 67th Ave., Miami, FL 33155, and 11115 W. Okeechobee Rd., 

Unit 101, Hialeah, FL 33018. 

Kristal Beharry 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Pepartment of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2012-16637 (Department of Health v. SAR 
PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC.) are ONE THOUSAND SEVEN 
HUNDRED THIRTY-EIGHT DOLLARS AND TWENTY-THREE 
CENTS ($1,738.23). 

6) The costs for DOH Case number 201 2-16637 (Department of Health 
v. SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC.) is summarized in Exhibit 1 

(Cost Summary Report), which is attached hereto. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH Case number 2012-1 6637 
(Department of Health v. SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC.) is 
detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

I of2 



8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me day of 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

Notary Signature '7 

neb 
Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 

septeirS25,2016 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201216637 

Subject's Name: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT. INC 

rage i ui 

I Costs 

Complaint: 1.00 

S 

I 1 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * 9; * * * * * 

Slit) Total: 
[ 

25.30 SI ,738.23j 

Expenses to Date: 
[ 

j 
Prior Aiti on nt: L I 

$ o.ooj 

Total Costs to Date: 
[ 

SI ,738.23} 

OOTIMETRAK/CSDETL.ASP 12/17/2013 



*** C
O

N
 F-I D

E
N

T
 IA

 L
 

M
edicol Q

uolfty 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
Item

ized C
ost by C

om
plaint 

C
om

plaint 
201216637 

R
eport D

ate 
12/17/2013 

P
age 

of2 

S
taff C

ode 
A

ctivity H
onrs 

S
taff R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

IC
O

N
SU

M
E

R
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S U
N

IT
 

I-1A
107 

1.00 
$54.90 

$54.90 
11/13/2012 

78 
IN

IT
IA

L R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

S
ub T

otal 
1.00 

$54.90 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

S
E

R
V

I C
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

M
1207 

0.70 
$61.19 

$42.83 
11/27/2012 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

M
1207 

1.30 
$61.19 

$79.55 
11/27/2012 

58 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

1207 
0.80 

$61.19 
$48.95 

11/27/2012 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

1207 
0.60 

$61.19 
$36.71 

11/28/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

1207 
0.70 

$63.98 
$44.79 

11130/2012 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

1207 
1.20 

$63.98 
$76.78 

11/30/2012 
58 

T
R

A
V

E
L T

IM
E

 
1207 

1.10 
$63.98 

$70.38 
12/05/20 12 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

1207 
1.20 

$63.98 
$76.78 

12/05/2012 
58 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

IM
E

 
1207 

0.60 
$63.98 

$38.39 
12/13/2012 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

1207 
0.40 

$63.98 
$25.59 

12/27/20 12 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

1207 
0.60 

$63.98 
$38.39 

01/16/2013 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

1207 
2.10 

$63.98 
$134.36 

02/18/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
1207 

1.50 
$63.98 

$95.97 
03/15/2013 

7 
P

R
E

LIM
IN

A
R

Y
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

1207 
0.60 

$63.98 
$38.39 

08/27/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
1207 

1.60 
$63.98 

$102.37 
08/27/2013 

58 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

M
I207 

0.60 
$63.98 

$38.39 
08/28/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

1207 
1.10 

$63.98 
$70.38 

08/28/2013 
58 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

LM
E

 
!207 

0.70 
$63.98 

$44.79 
08/29/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

1207 
0.50 

$63.98 
$31.99 

09/10/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
M

I207 
1.40 

$63.98 
$89.57 

09/10/2013 
58 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

IM
E

 
E

X
H

IB
IT

 
M

I207 
0.40 

$63.98 
$25.59 

09/11/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
M

I207 
0.80 

$63.98 
$51.18 

09/11/2013 
58 

T
R

A
V

E
LT

IM
E

 
7 

1207 
0.50 

$63.98 
$31.99 

118/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

item
izedcost 



ci 
C

 0 N
 F ID

 E
 N

T
! A

L
 *** 

Q
uclily A

ssurance 

lvt 
T

im
e T

racking System
 

___________ 

Item
ized C

ost by C
om

plaint 
C

om
plaint 

201216637 

R
eportD

ate 
12/17/2013 

P
age2of2 

Staff C
ode 

A
ctivity H

ours 
Staff R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

S
ub T

otal 
21.00 

Il'R
O

S
E

C
U

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 U
N

IT
 

$1,334.11 

O
A

 
0.30 

$106.35 
$31.9! 

01/18/2013 
78 

IN
IT

IA
L R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
O

A
 

0.30 
$106.35 

$31.91 
/2013 

60 
M

IS
C

E
LLA

N
E

O
U

S
 

O
A

 
0.40 

$106.35 
$42.54 

05/03/2013 
25 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

ILE
 

O
A

 
0.90 

$106.35 
$95.72 

05/07/2013 
28 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
O

A
 

0.70 
$106.35 

$74.45 
07/02/20 13 

90 
P

O
S

T
 P

R
O

B
A

B
LE

 C
A

U
S

E
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

IN
G

 
E

ILL9O
A

 
0.10 

$106.35 
$10.64 

08/06/2013 
60 

M
IS

C
E

LLA
N

E
O

U
S

 
E

-ILL9O
A

 
0.20 

$106.35 
$21.27 

09/24/2013 
103 

R
E

V
IE

W
 S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L R

E
P

O
R

T
 

O
A

 
0.20 

$101.95 
$20.39 

11/18/2013 
60 

M
IS

C
E

LLA
N

E
O

U
S

 
O

A
 

0.20 
$101.95 

$20.39 
11/18/2013 

60 
M

IS
C

E
LLA

N
E

O
U

S
 

S
ub T

otal 
3.30 

$349.22 

T
otal C

ost 
$1,738.23 

F
lorE

da D
epartm

ent of H
ealth 

- F
O

R
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
L U

S
E

 O
N

LY
-- 

tem
izedcost 



D
 E

N
 T

I A
L

 *** 
M

edical Q
uality A

ssurance 

T
im

e T
racking System

 

I'v't 
Item

ized E
xpense by C

om
plaint 

C
om

ptaint 

R
eport D

ate: 
12/17/2013 

P
age 

I of 
I 

E
xpense 

E
xpense 

E
xpense 

S
taif C

ode 
D

ate 
A

m
ount 

C
ode 

E
xpense C

ode D
escription 

S
ubT

otal 

T
otal E

xpenses 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
--F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
SE

 O
N

L
Y

-- 
item

izedexpense 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: MIAMI XI Date of Case: 11/8/12 Case Number PH 201 2-1 6637 
Subject: SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT, INC Source: DOHIISU-MIAMI 

2089 Sw 67th Ave 
Miami, FL 33155 

(305)263-5800 

Prefix: 2205 License #:25266 Profession: Board: Pharmacy Report Date:9/18/13 
Pharmacy 

Period of Investigation: 8/26/13-9/18/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL I 
Alleged violation : SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: 
This supplemental investigation is predicated upon receipt of a request from KRISTAL BEHARRY ESQ, 
Senior Attorney with DOH PSU. The request was to serve an AC packet and related papers to SAR 
PHARMACY owner VOELI SALGUIERO at her last known address of 2089 Sw 67th Ave Miami, FL 33155 

On 8/27/13, this investigator presented to SARs last known address and was not able to serve owner 
SALGUIERO as a new business was open at location. A search of various online databases showed a 
secondary residential address for SALGLJIERO of 11115W Okeechobee Road Unit 101 Hialeah, FL 33018 
this address was attempted with no success on 8/28/13, 8/29/1 3, 9/1 0/1 3, and 9/11/13. Phone number 
found for SALGUIERO 305-868-3284 was attempted, no answer was received when calls were attempted. 
As of the date of this report no response has been received from SALGUIERO. 

Exhibits: 
SI- Copy of affidavit of service for SAR PHARMACY ) 
Related Case(s): 2012-16646 

Investigator/Date Se ember 18, 2013 

/Downs 

Approved By/Date: 

Edward Thompson Manager 
Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

NV FORM 300, Revised 02/OS, Created 07/02 

C? 
U —' - 

a 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Department of Health 
Petitioner 

Vision: lobe the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

vs 
Sar Pharmacy-Owner Yoeli Salauiero 

Case No. 2012-16637 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 127/13, 8/28/13, 8/29/13, 9/10/13, 9/1 1/13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate 
Respondent, to serve Administrative complaint packet and related papers at last known address of 2089 th Avenue Miami, FL 33155 and a secondary address of 11115 W Okeechobee Road Unit 101 
l-iialeah, FL 33018. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

xAffiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing 
records on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area 
Respondent was known to frequent; (d) Division of Drivers Licenses 

iant 
State Of Florida 
County Of Miami Dade 

me by — 
signature appears 

Sworn to by Affiant before me this 

Notary of Florida 

(& 4 Ithk 
Type or Print Name 

NV FORM 321 

18th day of September 2013. 

Fthnaa 
HEALTH 

Before me, personally appeared 
oersonallv known 
above. 

(type of identification) 
Neil Downs whose identity is known to 

and who, acknowledges that his/her 

My Commission Expires 

ISKRA IORTA 
Commission # FF002218 
Expires March26, 2017 
Saod.d TM, Pa, 





DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: MIAMI Xl Date of Case: 11/08/2012 Case Number: PH 2012-1 6637 

Subject: 
SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT INC 
2089 Sw 67th Ave 
Miami, FL 33155 
(305)263-5800 

Source: 
DOH/ISIJ 

Prefix: 
2205 

" 

Period of Investigation:1 1/16/12-1/15/13 
I 

Type of Report: FINAL 

Alleged Violation: Possible Violation of SS. 456.072(1)(k)(dd); 465.01 6(1)(r); 
465.023(1)(c), F.S.; Rule 64B16-28.1081; F.A.C. Rule 64B16-28.202, F.A.C., and Rule 
64B16-28.203, F.A.C. Violate Statutes/Rules; Fail to perform legal obligations 
Synopsis: 
This investigation is predicated upon receipt of an internally generated pharmacy 
inspection alleging that on 10/16/12, 10/31/12 and 11/7/12 a routine inspection was 
attempted at SAR Pharmacy and Discount Inc (PH 25266), located at 2089 SW 67th Aye, 
Miami, FL 33155, the pharmacy was closed and appeared non-operational. The DOH 
database reflected that a closure had not been reported by the owner VOELI SALGUEIRO 
who is not licensed. 

SAR was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 11/16/12 (Exhibit #2) and was 
provided a copy of the CASE SUMMARY and initiating documents from Exhibit #1. 

No patients were identified thus no notification was necessary 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that SAR possesses a clear and active 
license as a special closed pharmacy. 

SAR is not known to be represented by an attorney. 

's owner YOELI SALGUEIRO executed a voluntary relinquishment on 12/18/12 

Related Case($: 201 2-1 6646 

Investig if. 13 Approved By/Date 1/15/13 

Neil anager 

DistriS'ution: HQ/ISU 

- 

IJAN 8 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-16637 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 : 
Statement of DAVID WARSHOFSKY, INVESTIGATOR, MIAMI ISU (SOURCE) 3 
Statement of YOELI SALGUEIRO, OWNER SAR PHARMACY LLC (SUBJECT) 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and initiating documents 4-7 

2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 11/16/12 8 

3. Copy of Sunbiz information for SAR 9 

4. Copy of executed VR for ACOSTA 10-12 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-16637 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 
On 12/18/12 this investigator received a copy of SAR's executed VR (Exhibit , Copy 
of VR was emailed to PSU as per desk guide guidelines on 12/18/12. 

On 12/13/12 this investigator was able to speak with landlord BERNIE NAVARRO via 
telephone (305)445-5223. NAVARRO provided access to pharmacy location to this 
investigator. This investigator was able to observe that location contained no 
medications and appeared abandoned. 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 contains the Case Summary and initiating documents. 

Exhibit #2 Copy of Notification letter, dated 11/16/12 

Exhibit #3 Copy of Sunbiz profile for SAR 

Exhibit #4 Copy of executed VR for ACOSTA 

Statement of DAVID WARSHOFSKY, INVESTIGATOR, MIAMI ISU ) 
Employment 
8350 NW Terrace Suite 400 
Miami, FL 33166 
(305)470-5800 

On 11/16/12, this investigator was able to speak with WARSHOFSKY in the Miami ISU 
office. He states that she does not have any additional information regarding the initial complaint 
beyond what is stated in the initial complaint form (Exhibit #1). 

Statement of YOELI SALGUEIRO, OWNER SAR PHARMACY LLC ) 
Employment 
2089 Sw th Avenue 
Miami, FL33155 
(305)263-6632 

On 12/18/12 this investigatorwas able to speak with SALQUIERO when she presented to Miami 
ISU office. SALGUIERO executed a voluntary relinquishment (Exhibit #4) of the pharmacy license. 
#25266 for SAR PHARMACY LLC. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 

Petitioner 

v. DON Case No, 2012-06637 & 
2012-16646 

SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT INC 

Respondent. 

VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF UCENSE 

Respondent, SAR PHARMACY DISCOUNT INC license number PH 25266 by and through its 
owner/officer, YOLU SALGUEIRO, hereby voluntarily relinquishes 

Respondent's permit to operate a community pharmacy and special Close Pharmacy in the 

State of Florida and states 

as follows: 
1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment 

administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent, by and through 

YOELI SALGUEIRO, understands that acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy 

Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed as disdplinary 

Respondent's permit pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent and its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, 

a pharmacy permit in the State of Florida. 

3. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, agrees to 

voluntarily cease operating as a community pharmacy immediately upon executing this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, 

further agrees to refrain from operating as a community pharmaty until such time as this 

is to avoid further 

its owner/officer, 

(hereinafter the 

action against 

9 



Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to the Board and the Board issues a written final order in 

this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action by the Board in a 

public meeting, Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, being fully 

advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of confidentiality of 

Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a determination of probable cause, by the 

Probable Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), 

Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of the Department of health, and 

all other information obtained pursuant to the Department's investigation in the above-styled 

action. By signing this waiver, Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, 

understands that the record and complaint become public record and remain public record and 

that information is immediately accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes. 

5.. Upon the s acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, Respondent, by and 

through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, 

or to otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final 

Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, 

hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall 

bear its own attorneys fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent, by and through its owner/officer, YOEU SALGUEIRO, authorizes the 

Board to review and examine all investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection 

with the Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent, by and through its 

owner/officer, YOELI SALGUEIRO, agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and 

other related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of its 



members, from frirther participation, consideration, or resolution of these proceedings if the terms 

of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not accepted by the Board. 

DATEDthjs 

AR PHARMA 
(by and through its Y 
SALGUEIRO 

STATE OF IDA } 
J. 

COUNTY OF DADE } 

Before me, personally appeared YOELI , whose identity is known to me by 
DL (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that 

his/her signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this " day of 

____________________ 

2012. 

A 
N ARYPUBU 

My Commission Expires: 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201312375 

LATORIA DENISE JONES, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: LATORIA DENISE JONES 
274 MAIN STREET 
SEBASTIAN, FL 32958 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Direct r 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWIUER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypmss Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



iAL1'H 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promota & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201312375 

LATORIA DENISE JONES, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTI CE 

TO: LATORIA DENISE JONES 
8565 61st DRIVE 
WABASSO, FL 32970 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Determination of Waiver 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/ I 
L-Ql ji 

Executive Directdr 
//BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 lHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL 

January 14, 2014 

THERESA W TOLLE 
7746 BAY STREET 
SEBASTIAN, FL 32958 

Re: DOH v. Latoria Denise Jones 
Case# 201312375 

Dear Theresa W Tolle: 

I am writing to you concerning the Department of Health's review of certain health care provided by the 
above named health care practitioner. That review included a full investigation and the filing of an 
Administrative Complaint. That review is nearing a conclusion and Board of Pharmacy is scheduled to 
take final disciplinary action in the matter on Wednesday, February 12, 2014. 

This is one of several matters that will be part of the public meeting. You are welcome to attend this 
public meeting, but you are not required to attend, and this is not a request that you attend the meeting. 
Cases shown on the agenda may be heard in a different order or may be heard earlier if all parties are 
present. Cases are scheduled to begin at 9 a.m.; therefore, if you choose to attend it is imperative that 
you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to remain until the case is heard as cases may be heard 
in a different order than they appear on the agenda. 

Florida law provides that the person who made the complaint to the Department ("complainant") is 

entitled to provide oral or written communication to the Board concerning the alleged violation or the 
appropriate penalty. Likewise, the patient/legal representative in the case who was not the 
"complainant" may request that the Board allow them the same opportunity to provide such written or 
oral communication. The Board has granted such requests. If you have any questions concerning this 
matter, please contact the Department's Prosecution Services Unit prior to the meeting at 
(850)245-4640. Please reference the above case number when calling. 

All final disciplinary actions of the Board are reflected in written orders which are available on the 
Department's website at: . Please allow 30-60 days after the board meeting for 
the posting of these orders. 

/ Executive Directdr f Board of Pharmacy 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:NealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin dO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 BOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Fledda through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

H EALTH 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM : Louise Wilhite-St. Laurent, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Determination of Waiver 

SUBJECT: DOH v. Latoria Denise Jones, R. P.T. 

DOH Case Number 2013-12375 

DATE: December 18, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the February 12, 

2014, agenda for final agency action for the meeting of the board. The following information is 

provided in this regard. 

Subject: Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. 

Subject's Address of Record: 8565 Drive 
Wabasso, FL 32970 
772-646-1330 Telephone 

Enforcement Address: 274 Main Street 
Sebastian, FL 32958 

Subject's License No: 45081 Rank: RPT 

Licensure File No: 46966 

Initial Licensure Date: 10/19/20 12 

Board Certification: None 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: None 

Allegation(s): 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), by violating 

Section 893.13, Florida Statutes (2012-2013). 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: Lee Fallon, BPharm, Ph.D. and Debra Glass, BPharm 

PCP: October 10, 2013 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/AddreSS Theresa Tolle, RPH 

7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, Florida 32958 
(772) 589-2043 Telephone 



DOH v. Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. 
DOH Case 201 3-1 2375 
Page 2 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Determination of Waiver 

Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint 
Exhibit B - Copy of Certified Mail Receipt 
Exhibit C — Affidavit of Non-Receipt — Board 

Exhibit D — Affidavit of Non-Receipt — Clerk 

Motion to Assess Costs with Attachments 
Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees & Costs Expended 

Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by Complaint 

Probable Cause Panel Memorandum 
Emergency Suspension Order 

Affidavit of Diligent Search (from investigator) 
Certified mail receipt 
Administrative week'y 

Supplemental Investigative Report dated 11/26/2013 
Exhibits S4-1 through S4-2 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 10/15/2013 
Exhibits S3-1 through S3-3 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 8/22/2013 
Exhibits S2-1 through S2-2 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 8/13/2013 
Exhibits Si through S3 

Final Investigative Report dated 8/08/2013 with Exhibits 1-7 

State Attorney Surveillance Video and Interview of Respondent 

DISCIPLINARY : 
• Unlawful Possession of Controlled Substance in violation of Section 893.13, Florida Statutes: 

Minimum of $5,000 fine and 2 years probation; Maximum of Revocation. 



DOH v. Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. 
DOH Case 201 3-1 2375 
Page 3 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: DETERMINATION OF WAIVER 

The Respondent in this case was a registered pharmacy technician volunteering at a 

pharmacy in Sebastian, Florida. The employees noted that the Roxicodone 30mg count was off by 

200 pills on June 31, 2013. On August 3, 2013, Respondent was observed on surveillance camera 

stealing two, 100 count, bottles of oxycodone 30mg and placing them under her skirt. Respondent 

admitted to law enforcement that she took the pills for her own pain. Respondent was arrested and 

charged with grand theft and trafficking in oxycodone. 
• The Department issued an Emergency Suspension Order on September 26, 2013. 

• The Department filed an Administrative Complaint on October 10, 2013. 

• The Administrative Complaint was served on an adult female residing at the Respondent's 

last known address on November 25, 2013. The woman confirmed that Respondent was a 

resident of that address and accepted service of the Administrative Complaint and 

corresponding materials. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEPARTMENT 
• The Department recommends that the Respondent's registration be permanently 
revoked. 

CONSIDERATIONS SUPPORTING THE DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDATION 

• The Respondent stole at least 300 roxicodone/oxycodone tablets from her employer, possibly 

even 400 tablets. Although the Respondent admitted to ingesting them herself, according to 

the police report, she would have ingested 92 tablets within a four-day period. This is highly 

unlikely the case. The Respondent is facing criminal charges and has eluded the 

Department's investigator by failing to return messages or contact the investigator after the 

investigator spoke with three individuals who were either related to the Respondent or 

residing with the Respondent. The Respondent failed to return an Election of Rights to the 

Department within the required period and is appearing to take no responsibility for her 

actions in this case. 
• The Department recommends revocation because, based on the Respondent's actions, she 

cannot be trusted in any pharmacy where she will have access to controlled substance. The 

egregiousness of the thefts in the quantity of the pills stolen and the number of occasions 

stolen demonstrate that the Respondent should not be permitted to practice in a pharmacy 

in the future. 

Flonda Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General CounselS Prosecution Services Unit TWITTERHealth FLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3256 FACEBOOKFLDepartmentotHealth 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 YOUTUBE fldoh 

PHONE: 8501245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4662 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-12375 
Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T., 

Respondent. 

MOTION FOR DETERMINATION OF WAIVER AND FOR 
FINAL ORDER BY HEARING NOT INVOLVING 

DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through counsel, moves the 

Board of Pharmacy to find that Respondent has waived her right to elect a 

method of disposition of the pending Administrative Complaint, to determine 

that no material facts are in dispute, to conduct a hearing not involving 

disputed issues of material face, and to enter a Final Order. As grounds 

therefore, Petitioner states: 

1. An Administrative Complaint was filed against Respondent on 

October 10, 2013. A copy of said Administrative Complaint is attached 

hereto as Petitioner's Exhibit A. 

DON v. Latoria Denise Jones, R.PT. 
DOH Case Number 2013-12375 



2. Copies of the Administrative Complaint, Election of Rights form, 

and Explanation of Rights form were sent to Respondent, via certified US 

mail delivery, on October 29, 2013, (article number 7196 9008 9111 5773 

9494) and on October 15, 2013, (artide number 7196 9008 9111 5773 

9449). A copy of the green card receipts and envelope are attached hereto 

as Petitioner's Exhibit B. 

3. Respondent has not filed with either the Department of Health or 

the Board of Pharmacy, an Election of Rights form or other responsive 

pleading in this case within the required twenty-one (21) day period to 

dispute the allegations contained in the Administrative Complaint. Copies of 

affidavits supporting same are attached hereto as Petitioner's Exhibits C and 

D. 

4. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this motion sent to 

her address of record that a copy of the investigative file in this case shall 

be furnished to the Board to establish a prima facie case regarding the 

violations as set forth in the Administrative Complaint. 

5. The Department requests that this Motion and a hearing be 

placed on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of Pharmacy to be 

held on February 12, 2014, in Orlando, Florida. 

DOH V. Latoha Denise Jones, R.P.T 2 
DOH Case Number 2013-12375 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board find that 

Respondent has waived her right to elect a method of resolution of this 

matter, find that there are no material facts in dispute, hold a hearing not 

involving material issues of disputed fact based on the information contained 

in the investigative file, find that Respondent violated Chapters 456 and 465, 

Florida Statutes, as alleged in the Administrative Complaint, impose discipline 

in accordance with the disciplinary guidelines, and enter a Final Order. 

DATED this day of , 2013. 

Respectfully 

Louise Wilhite-St Laurent, Esq. 
Florida Bar No. 0091244 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245-4444, extension 8331 
(F) 850-245-4662 
(E) Louise...$tLaurent@doftstate.fi.us 

DOR v. Latoria Denise , R.P.T 
3 l Case Number 2013-12375 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Motion for Determination of Waiver and for Final Order by 

Hearing not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact has been 

provided by U.S. certified Mail to Respondent, Latoria Denise Jones, 

R.P.T, 8565 Drive, Wabasso Florida 32970, this day of 

2013. 

Louise Wilhite-St. Laurent 
Assistant General Counsel 

LSL/m Ia 

DOH V. Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T 4 DOH Case Number 2013-12375 



STATE OF IDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh, 

PETInONER, 

v. CASE NO.: 2013-12375 
LATORIA DENISE JONES, R.P.TI, 

RESPONDENT. 

/ 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through the undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, Latoria Denise Jones, R.RT., and in support thereof 

aHeges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy and registered pharmacy technicians, pursuant to 

Chapters 20.43, Florida Statutes (2012-2013.), Chapter 456, Florida 

Statutes (2012-2013) and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012-2013). 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a registered pharmacy technician, pursuant to Chapter 

EXHIBIT 



465, Florida Statutes (20 12-2013), having been issued license number RPT 

45081. 

3. Respondent's address of record is 274 Main Street, Sebastian, 

Florida 32958. Respondent's current address is 8565 6Vt. Drive, Wabasso, 

Florida 32970. 

4. Respondent volunteered as a registered. pharmacy technician at 

Bay Street Pharmacy located at 7746 Bay Street, Sebastian, Florida. 

5. On or about June 30, 2013, Respondent stole between 100 and 

200 Roxicodone pills from Bay Street Pharmacy. 

6. Roxicodone is the brand name for oxycodone, an oploid-class 

medication commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 

893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), oxycodone is a Schedule I 
controlled substance. 

7. On or about August 3, 2013, Respondent stole 200 

pills from Bay Street Pharmacy. 

8. Respondent stole the Roxicodorte and oxycodone pills from Bay 

Street Pharmacy in order to consume them herself. Respondent did, in 

fact, consume some of the stolen pills. 

DOH.v. Latoria Denise Jo.ies, R.P.t 
2 DOff Case Number 2013-12375 



9. Section 465.016(Jj(e), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), subjects 

registered pharmacy technicians to discipline for violating Chapter 893, 

Florida Statutes (2012-2013). 

10. Chapter 893.13, Florida Statutes (2012-2013), states in 

pertinent part: 

(6)(a) It is unlawful for any person to be in actual 
or constructive possession of a controlled substance 
unless such controlled substance was lawfully 
obtained from a practitioner or pursuant to a valid 
prescription or order of a practitioner while acting in 
the course of his or her professional practice or to 
be in actual or constructive possession of a 
controfled substance except as authorized by this 
chapter.... 

(7)(a) A person may not: 
9. Acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or 
obtain, possession of a controlled substance by 
misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or 
subterfuge. 

11. Respondent violated Section 6S.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 

(2012-2013), in one or more of the following ways: 

a. By possessing oxycodone and/or Roxicodone in violation of 

Chapter 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2012-2013); and/or 

b. By acquiring possession of oxycodone and/or Roxicodone by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or subterfuge in 

DOK v. LatorCa Denise , R.P.T. 
3 DOH Case Number 





SIGNED this / day of ()0 kbw 2013. 

PCP: October 10, 2013 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

ulse Wilhite-St Laurent 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar Number 0091244 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 x 8331 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4662 
Email: Louise_StLaurent@doh.state.fl. us 

PCP Members: Leo 3. "Lee" Fallon, BPharm, PhD & Debra Glass, BPharrn 

DOH v. Latoria Denise Jones, &P.T, 
DON Case Number 2013-12375 

S 

ILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

CLERK 

CLERK 
DATE 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 
Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shalt assess costs related to the investigation and. prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DON v. Lato4a Denise Jones, R.P.T. 

6 
DON Cese Numbej 2013-lam 



719.6 9008 91.11 5773 91j9q 

?&atoria Denise Jones, RPT 
241 8th Avenue 

Sebastian, FL 32962 

-yR 
Bennett 2013-12375 

REFERENCE: 

LP S Form 3800, y 2005 

RETURN Postage 

f_Certified Fee 

Receipt Fee 

j_?estricted Delivery 
Total Postage & Fees 

US Postal Servicea IARK OR DATE 

Receipt for 10/29/13 
Certified Mair 
No Insurance Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use rer International Mail 

• EXHIBIT ci: 



F
LO

R
ID

A
 D

E
P

A
K

T
M

E
N

F
 O

F
 

V
E

A
L

T
 

P
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
U

ni
t 

40
52

 
W

ay
, 

B
in

 #
C

65
 

32
39

9-
32

65
 

3-
 

&
:
,
 

C
,
 

—
 

co
 

t'J
 

I—
 

(-
3 C
 

C
- 0 I 

0 

•ç
tS

P
O

s 

d 

02
 

06
.5

1°
 

00
04

25
46

50
 

C
C

T
I5

 
20

13
 

M
A

IL
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 Z

IR
C

O
D

E
 3

23
01

 

S
E

N
D

 E
 •

R
 

A
S

 
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

E
D

 
F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 

*0
79

1_
eg

st
z_

15
 -

41
 

I
 

I 

l
i
l
t
'
 

I—
 

I 
71

%
 

90
08

 
93

.1
1 

37
?]

 
94

49
 

L
at

or
ia

 D
en

is
el

on
es

, 
R

P
T

 
r3

56
5 

D
r.

 
W

ab
as

so
, 
F
L
 3
2
9
7
0
 

3
2
3
9
9
1
4
3
2
6
5
 

R
E

T
U

R
N

 
T

O
 

N
U

T
 

D
E

LI
V

E
R

A
B

LE
 

U
N

A
B

LE
 

T
O

 

B
C

: 
32

39
93

25
59

9 







STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-12375 

Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T, 

Respondent. 

____________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through undersigned 

counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of a Final Order 

assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation and 

prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), Florida 

Statutes (2012). As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of Pharmacy 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary action and will 

enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes (2012), states, in pertinent 

part, as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed through 
final order, or citation, entered on or after July 1, 

DOH v. Latoria Denise jones, R.P.T. 

DOH Case Number 2013-12375 



2001, under this section or discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 
July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the 
board, or the department when there is no board, 
shall assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. The costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are not 
limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, costs 
related to the time spent by the attorney and other 
personnel working on the case, and any other 
expenses incurred by the department for the case. 
The board, or the department when there is no 
board, shall determine the amount of costs to be 
assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written objections thereto.... 

3. As evidenced in the attached affidavit (Exhibit A), the 

investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in costs in the total 

amount of $2,493.19, based on the following itemized statement of costs: 

Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201312375 

Subject's Name: JONES, LATORIA DENISE 
***** Cost to Date ***** 

___________________ Hours Costs 

1.00 $54.90 

Investigation: 131.60 I$2,020.16 
I 

13.90 $414.79 
I 

10.10 
I 

$3.34 
I _ l********** ********** 

Sub Total: .60 $2,493.19 

lExpenses to Date: !0.00 
Prior Amount: 

I 
0 

Total Costs to Date: 
j .19 

DOI-I v. Latoria Denise Jones, R.PT. 2 
DOH Case Number 2013-12375 





DATED this U day of 2013. 

Respectfully submitted 

Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 0091244 
Phone (850) 245-4444 x 8331 
Fax (850) 245-4662 @doh.state.fl. us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this ) of 

F , 2013 to 

Drive, Wabasso, Florida 32970. 

L.SL/m I a 

Assistant General Counsel 

DOFf v. Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. 4 DOFf Case Number 2013-12375 

'ilhite-St. 

Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T., 8565 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2013-1 2375 (Department of Health v. Latoria Denise 
Jones, R.P.T.) are TWO THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY- 
THREE DOLLARS AND NINETEEN CENTS ($2,493.19). 

6) The costs for DOH case 2013-1 2375 (Department of Health v. Latoria 
Denise Jones, R.P.T) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost Summary 
Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 201 3-1 2375 
(Department of Health v. Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T.) are detailed 
in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 

receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

— EXHIBfT 
I 

Iof2 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 

expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 

charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 

foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this f day of 1)Y¼3 ( 2013, 

by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

Notary Signature 

Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

I1UA HAYES 

I.: (S A. CG'!t#EE838344 

Troy Fin rsswcs 

2 of 2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201312375 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: JONES, LATORIA DENISE 

[ 
Cost to Date 

fl Hours Costs 

Complaint: 1.00 $54.90 

Investigation: 
I 

31.60 52,020.161 

L 1 
Compliance: 

I o.i01 

L********** 
Sub Total: 1 52,493.19 

Expenses to Date: $0.00 

Prior Amount: 

Costs to Date: I 1 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 12/18/2013 



at 
M

edicol 
A

ssurance 
IA

L
*** 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
Item

ized C
ost by C

om
plaint 

C
om

plaint 
201312375 

R
eport D

ate 
2/18/2013 

P
age 

I of3 

S
taff C

ode 
A

ctivity H
ours 

S
taff R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

IC
O

M
P

LIA
N

C
E

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 U
N

IT
 

I 

H
C

27 
0.05 

$33.33 
- 

$1.67 
09/26/2013 

125 
LIC

E
N

S
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 

H
C

27 
0.05 

533.33 
$1.67 

09/26/20 13 
129 

U
P

D
A

T
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
LIA

N
C

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

 

S
ub T

otal 
0.10 

53.34 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

ILR
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 U
N

IT
 

I 

S
 

1.00 
$54.90 

$54.90 
08/05/20 13 

78 
IN

IT
IA

L R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

S
ub T

otal 
1.00 

$54.90 
. 

I IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

189 
0.90 

$63.98 
$57.58 

08/06/2013 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

W
I89 

2.20 
$63.98 

$140.76 
08/06/2013 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

W
I89 

0.40 
$63.98 

$25.59 
08/06/20 13 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

W
I89 

2.20 
$63.98 

$140.76 
08/07/20 13 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

W
I89 

1.70 
$63.98 

$108.77 
08/07/2013 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

W
189 

0.70 
$63.98 

$44.79 
08/08/20 13 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

W
189- 

0.10 
$63.98 

$6.40 
08/08/2013 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

W
I89 

2.40 
$63.98 

$153.55 
08/08/2013 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.10 
$63.98 

$6.40 
08/09/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

189 
0.20 

$63.98 
$12.80 

08/09/2013 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

S
9 

0.20 
$63.98 

$12.80 
08/12/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.30 
$63.98 

$19.19 
08/12/2013 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.20 
$63.98 

$12.80 
08/13/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

189 
0.30 

$63.98 
$19.19 

08/13/20 13 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

W
I89 

0.10 
$63.98 

$6.40 
08/22/20 13 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

W
189 

0.90 
$63.98 

$57.58 
09/30/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.40 
$63.98 

$25.59 
09/30/20 13 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

-- 
item

izedcost 



ci 
C

O
 N

 F ID
 E

N
 T

 IA
 L

 
M

edical Q
uality A

ssurance 

T
im

e T
racking System

 

__________ 

Item
ized C

ost by C
om

plaint 
C

om
plaint 

201312375 

R
eport D

ate 
12/18/2013 

P
age2of3 

S
taff C

ode 
A

ctivity H
ours 

S
taff R

ate 
C

ost 
A

ctivity D
ate 

A
ctivity C

ode 
A

ctivity D
escription 

189 
0.70 

$63.98 
$4439 

10/01/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
189 

0.20 
$63.98 

$1280 
10/03/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.20 
$63.98 

$12.80 
13 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

189 
0.30 

$63.98 
$19.19 

10/08/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
189 

5.00 
$63.98 

$319.90 
10/09/2013 

tO
O

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 O

F
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
S

, S
U

B
P

O
E

N
A

S
, N

O
T

IC
E

 T
O

 C
E

A
S

E
 

189 
-60 

$63.98 
$38.39 

10/10/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
189 

0.30 
$63.98 

$19.19 
10/11/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.40 
$63.98 

$2159 
10/14/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

0.30 
$63.98 

$19.19 
10/14/2013 

76 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

189 
0.30 

$63.98 
$19.19 

10/15/2013 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
189 

0.20 
$63.82 

$12.76 
11/08/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

W
I89 

1.20 
$63.82 

$76.58 
11/12/2013 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
 

189 
4.60 

$63.82 
$293.57 

11/15/2013 
100 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 O
F

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

S
, S

U
B

P
O

E
N

A
S

, N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 

189 
3.20 

$63.82 
$204.22 

11/25/2013 
100 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 O
F

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

S
, S

U
B

P
O

E
N

A
S

, N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 

189 
0.20 

$63.82 
$12.76 

11/25/2013 
6 

S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 
W

t89 
0.40 

$63.82 
$25.53 

11/25/2013 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
W

I89 
0.20 

$63.82 
$12.76 

11/26/2013 
76 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 

S
ub T

otal 
31.60 

52,020.16 

IP
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 S
 U

N
IT

 

H
LLIO

IB
 

0.30 
$106.35 

$31.91 
08/09/2013 

78 
IN

IT
IA

LR
E

V
IE

W
A

N
D

A
N

A
LY

S
IS

O
F

C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

ILLIO
IB

 
040 

$106.35 
$42.54 

08/14/2013 
25 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

ILE
 

O
IB

 
0.20 

$106.35 
$21.27 

08/14/2013 
35 

T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

C
A

LLS
 

H
LLIO

IB
 

0.10 
$106.35 

$10.64 
08/26/2013 

35 
T

E
LE

P
U

O
N

E
C

A
LLS

 
IO

IB
 

0.50 
$106.35 

$5118 
09/16/2013 

103 
R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

P
P

LE
M

E
N

T
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

 
. 

1 
$106.35 
$106.35 

E
S

O
/E

R
O

 
$106.35 

574.45 
09/26/2013 

28 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

IO
IB

 
0.20 

5106.35 
$21.27 

10/03/2013 
89 

P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
I-ILL1 01 B

 
0.20 

$106.35 
$21.27 

10/10/2013 
63 

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

A
S

E
S

 T
O

 P
R

O
B

A
B

LE
 C

A
U

S
E

 P
A

N
E

L 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
-- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
item

izedcost 



D
ivision of 

w
 

M
edical Q

ualN
y A

ssurance 

M
O

A
 

***C
O

N
FL

D
E

N
T

IA
L

*** 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
Item

ized C
ost by C

om
plaint 

C
om

plaint 
201312375 

R
eport D

ate 
12/18/2013 

P
age 3 of 3 

S
taff C

ode A
ctivity H

ours 
S

taff R
ate 

C
ost 

A
ctivity D

ate 
A

ctivity C
ode 

A
ctivity D

escription 

S
ub T

otal 
3.90 

5414.79 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
- F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
iternizedcost 



D
ivhion of 

M
edical Q

uality A
ssurance 

M
Q

A
 

***C
O

N
FID

E
N

T
IA

L
*** 

T
im

e T
racking System

 
Item

ized E
xpense by C

om
plaint 

C
om

plaint 

R
eport D

ate: 
12/18/2013 

P
age 

I of 

E
xpense 

E
xpense 

E
xpense 

Staff C
ode 

D
ate 

A
m

ount 
C

ode 
E

xpense C
ode D

escription 

S
ubT

otal 

T
otal E

xpenses 

F
lorida D

epartm
ent of H

ealth 
--F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L U
S

E
 O

N
LY

-- 
item

izedexpense 



MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE 

TO: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

ADMINISTRATION, GENERAL COUNSEL, PHARMACY SECTION 

FROM: CHAIRMAN, PROBABLE CAUSE PANEL 

RE: LATORIA DENISE JONES, R.P.T. CASE NO. 2013-12375 

DATE OF PROBABLE CAUSE PANEL MEETING: October 10, 2013 

THIS MATTER WAS BROUGHT BEFORE THE PROBABLE CAUSE PANEL MEMBERSHIP 

COMPOSED OF Leo J. "Lee" Fallon, BPharm, PhD & Debra Glass, BPharm ON THE DATE SET 

FORTH ABOVE. THE PANEL, HAVING RECEIVED THE COMPLETE INVESTIGATIVE 

REPORT, HAVING CAREFULLY REVIEWED THAT REPORT, HAVING REVIEWED THE 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE AGENCY, AND HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO 

INQUIRE OF COUNSEL AND BEING OTHERWISE DULY ADVISED IN THE PREMISES 

THEREOF, FIND THAT: 

PROBABLE CAUSE WAS NOT FOUND IN THIS CASE. 

XXX PROBABLE CAUSE WAS FOUND ON THE FOLLOWING STATUTORY 

AND REGULATORY GROUNDS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 

SECTION(S): 

465.016(1 (e). Florida Statutes (201 

/ /1 A A 1 

CHAI ERSON, CAUSE PANEL / 
BOARD OF 



Iinal Order No. 

FILED tSEP 2 6 2013 

STATE OF IDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. 
Registration Number RPT 45081 
Case Number 2013- 12375 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 

of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the registration of Latoria 

Denise Jones, R.P.T., ("Ms. Jones") to practice as a registered pharmacy 

technician in the State of Florida. Ms. Jones holds registration number RPT 

45081. Her address of record is 274 Main Street, Sebastian, Florida 32958. 

Ms. Jones's current address is 8565 6vt Drive, Wabasso, Florida 32970. 

The following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law support the 

emergency suspension of Ms. Jones's registration to practice as a 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OFFACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department") is the state agency 

charged with regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Chapters 20, 

456, and 465, Florida Statutes (2013). Section 456.073(8), florida 

Statutes (2013), authorizes the State Surgeon General to summarily 



In Re: Emergency Suspensicn of the of 
Latotia Denise Jones, R.P.T. 
Regitation Number RPT 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

suspend Ms. Jones's registration to practice as a registered pharmacy 

technician in the State of Florida in accordance with Section 120.60(6), 

Florida Statutes (2013). 

2. At all times material to this order, Ms. Jones was a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida, pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2013), and worked on a voluntary basis as a registered 

pharmacy technician at Bay Street Pharmacy located at 7746 Bay Street, 

Sebastian, Florida. 

3. On or about June 31, 2013, employees at Bay Street Pharmacy 

conducted an internal audit of the medication count in the pharmacy. The 

employees noted that the count for Roxicodone 30mg was off by 200 pills. 

4. Roxicodone is the brand name for oxycodone, an oploid-class 

medication commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 

893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012-2013), oxycodone is a Schedule II 

controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a 

currently accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the 

United States. Abuse of oxycodone may lead to severe psychological or 

physical dependence. 

5. Ms. Jones volunteered in the pharmacy on June 30, 2013, the 

2 



In Re: Emergency of the Regitatlon of 
Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.t 

Number RPT 45081 
Case Number 2a13-12375 

day before the audit. 

6. The owner of Bay Street Pharmacy contacted law enforcement 

and a surveillance camera was set up inside the pharmacy. 

7. On or about August 3, 2013, Ms. Jones went to Bay Street 

Pharmacy and asked the pharmacist on duty if she could use the 

pharmacy's computer to make an insurance payment because Ms. Jones's 

internet was not working. The pharmacist allowed this, and Ms. Jones 

used the computer. At approximately 11:23 a.m., shortly after she used 

the computer, Ms. Jones is seen on surveillance video taking two bottles 

from a pharmacy shelf and pladng them under her skirt. Ms. Jones left the 

pharmacy at approximately 11:45 a.m. 

8. After Ms. Jones left the pharmacy, staff immediately conducted 

a count of medication in the area Ms. Jones had been and discovered that 

two 100-count bottles of oxycodone 30mg were missing from the 

pharmacy. The employees contacted Indian River County Sheriff's 

Detective G.S., who responded to the location and reviewed the 

surveillance footage. 

9. On or about August 3, 2013, Detective (3.5. made contact with 

Ms. Jones as she was pulling into her driveway. Detective G.S. conducted 

3 



In Re: SuspenSon of the Registration of 
Latoda Denise Jones, R.P.T. 
Registration Number 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

an audio-recorded interview of Ms. Jones. Ms. Jones told Detective G.S. 

that she had sickle ceR anemia and she took the Us from the pharmacy 

for her pain. Ms. Jones stated that she had only taken pills from the 

pharmacy on two occasions and that she had issues getting additional 

prescriptions from her doctors. Ms. Jones told Detective (IS. that she had 

one unopened bottle of oxycodone 30mg in her vehicle, and that she 

poured the pills from the second bottle that she took on August 3, 2013, 

into her own prescription pill bottle that contained various other pills. 

10. When questioned about the theft of Roxicodone earlier that 

week, Ms. Jones stated that she only took one 100-count bottle of 

Roxicodone from the pharmacy and put it in her own pill bottle. Ms. Jones 

stated that she only takes the pills herself and does not sell them or give 

them to anyone else. 

11. Upon a search of Ms. Jones's vehicle, Detective G.S. found one 

unopened 100-count bottle of oxycodone 30mg belonging to Bay Street 

Pharmacy. Detective G.S. also found a prescription bottle with Ms. Jones's 

name on the bottle containing 200 oxycodone 30mg pills and 8 Roxicodone 

30mg pills. Assuming that Ms. Jones was telling the truth in stating that 

she only took one 100-count bottle of Roxicodone pills earlier in the week 

4 



In Re: Emergency Sispeson of the tator of 
Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.t 
Regisbaton Number RPT 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

and only ingested the pills herself, Ms. Jones would have ingested 92 

Roxicodone pills in a four-day period. 

12. On or about August 5, 2013, 1 Jones was arrested and 

charged with trafficking in oxycodone, and two counts of grand theft, in 

Indian River County Case Number 2013CF0971. The charges against Ms. 

Jones are currently pending resolution. 

13. Registered pharmacy technicians assist pharmacists in data 

entry, and the counting, weighing, measuring, pouring and mixing of 

prescription medication or stock legend drugs and controlled substances, 

among various other tasks. Because registered pharmacy technicians are 

entrusted with such important tasks which include the handling, counting, 

and reporting of the drugs in the pharmacy, it is imperative that a 

registered pharmacy techniCian have good judgment and moral character 

while working in a pharmacy 

14. Ms. Jones's behavior in stealing between 300 and 400 

prescription oxycodone or Roxicodone tablets for personal use within a 

one-week period and her consumption of stolen controlled substances 

clearly demonstrate that she is lacking the judgment and moral character 

needed to practice as a registered pharmacy technician. 

5 



In Re: Emergency SuspeMon of the Regisbatm of 
Latotia Denise R.Pt 

Number RPT 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

15. As a result of her employment as a registered pharmacy 

technician, Mr. Jones was aware that prescription medications and 

controlled substances may only be dispensed to patients who have valid 

prescriptions and need the medications for a legitimate health reason. 

Despite this, Ms. Jones illegally diverted controlled substances for herself 

when she did not have a valid prescription for the drugs. 

16. Mr. Jones's lack of good judgment and moral character, her 

theft of large quantities of controlled substances from her employer, and 

her disregard for the laws and rules governing the practice of pharmacy in 

the State of Florida represent a significant likelihood that Ms. Jones will 

continue her illegal behavior. This probability constitutes an immediate 

serious danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the 

State of Florida. Restricting Ms. Jones's registration would not adequately 

protect the public because the very nature of practicing as a registered 

pharmacy technician puts Ms. Jones in contact with legend drugs and 

controlled substances, which creates the risk for further theft of the 

controlled substances. Additionally, Ms. Jones appears to be ingesting high 

quantities of oxycodone or Roxicodone herself in short time periods. As a 

result, nothing short of the immediate suspension of Ms. Jones's 

6 



In Re: Emergency Suspen5on of the Regigradon of 
Latcsia ise Jones, R.P.t 
Registadon Number Rfl 45081 
case Number 2013-12375 

registration to practice as a registered pharmacy technician will protect the 

public from this danger. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

concludes as follows: 

1. The State Surgeon General of the Department of Health has 

jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.073(8), 

Florida Statutes (2013), and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2013), as set 

forth above. 

2. Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2013), subjects 

registered pharmacy technicians to discipline, including suspension, for 

violating Chapter 893, Florida Statutes (2013). 

3. Chapter 893.13, Florida Statutes (2013), states in pertinent 

part: 

(6)(a) It is unlawful for any person to be in actual or 
constructive possession of a controlled substance unless 
such controlled substance was lawfully obtained from a 

practitioner or pursuant to a valid prescription or order 
of a practItioner while acting in the course of his or her 
professional practice or Iti be in actual or constructive 
possession of a controlled substance except as 
authorized by this chapter.... 

7 



In Re: Emergency Suwension of the of 
Latoria Dadse R.P.t 

Number Rfl 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

(7)(a) A person may not: 
9. Acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or obtain, 
possession of a controlled substance by 
misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or 
subterfuge. 

4. Ms. Jones violated Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes 

(2013), in one or more of the following ways: 

a. By possessing oxycodone and/or Roxicodone in violation of 

Chapter 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes (2013); and/or 

b. By acquiring possession of oxycodone and/or Roxicodone by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception or subterfuge in 

violation of Chapter 893.13(7)(a)(9), Florida Statutes (2013). 

5. Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2013), authorizes the 

Department to suspend a registered pharmacy technician's registration 

upon a finding that the registered pharmacy technician presents an 

immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety or welfare. 

6. Ms. Jones's continued ability to practice as a registered 

pharmacy technician constitutes an immediate serious danger to the 

health, safety, or welfare of the public and this summary procedure is fair 

under the circumstances to adequately protect the public. 

8 



In Re: Emergency of the RegistraUon of 
Latoila De'iise JonE, R.P.T. 
-aUrn Number Rfl 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

In accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2013), it is 

ORDERED THAT: 

1. The registration of Latoria Denise Jones, registration number 

RPT 45081, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal discipline of the registration of Ms. 

Jones to practice as a registered pharmacy technician will be prvmptly 

instituted and acted upon in compliance with Sections 120.569 and 

120.60(6), Florida Statues (2013). 

DONE and ORDERED this "day of 

___. 

2013. 

John 
State urgeon General and 
Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 

Louise Wilhite-St Laurent 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0091244 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-1111 x8331 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4662 
Email: Louise_StLaurent@doh.state.fl. us 

9 



In Re: Emergency Suspen9on of the RegisUaton of 
Latoda Denise 3ones, LPJ. 

Number RPT 45081 
Case Number 2013-12375 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sections 120.60(6) and 120.68, Florida Statutes, this 

Order is judidally reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the 

Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. Review proceedings are commenced 

by filing a Petition for Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate 

Procedure 9.100, with the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing 

fee prescribed by law, and a copy of the Petition with the Agency Clerk of 

the Department within 30 days of the date this Order Is filed. 

10 

-J 



Rick Scott Mission: — 

To protect, promote & improve the health Governor 

of in Flodda through 
fritegrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEAL11-I State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 
vs LATORIA JONES, RPT Case No.2013-12375 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1) Affiant is an lnvestigatorllnspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve__ Administrative Complaint and 
related papers; — Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

____________Notice 

to cease 
and desist; ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

_______Affiant 

made personal service on Respondent, 

XX Affiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others as detailed in corresponding 
supplemental report. 

Affian 

State Of Florida 

County Of Palm Beach 

Before me, personally appeared AMY SENIOR whose identity is known to me by Personal KnowledQe (type of 
identification) and who, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to or Affiant before me this of October, 2013 

Notary of Florida 

Type or Print Name 

DARYL FRUTh 
couimission#EE111598 
Expires UgUSt 23, 2015 
ecndednrJTrGYFr 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance • Bureau of Investigafions 
9008 US Highway 1, Suite 207, Jupiter FL 33477 
Phone: - Fax: 561-741-4581 

c 
www.FioridasHealth.com 

TWfITER:HeaIthyFLA 
FA C E BOOK: FLDe pa lea Ith 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 



Minion: Rick Scott 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of aD in flodda through klte9rated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretaiy 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Florida Administrative Registry 

FROM: Tamia Christopher, Regulatory Specialist I 

RE: Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T., RPT # 45081 (FAW # 13607468) 

CASE NO: 201 3-12375 

DATE: September 27, 2013 

Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension Order for notice in the next issue of the Florida 
Administrative Register. 

On September 26, 2013, the State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Latoria 
Denise Jones, R.P.T., RPT #45081. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an 
immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6) Florida Statutes 
(2011). The State Surgeon General determined that this summaiy procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other 
method available to adequately protect the public. 

Fiorida Department of Health www.FioildasHealth.com 
Prosecution Services Unit TWiTTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 -Tallahassee, FL 32399 lealth 
PHONE: 850-245.4444 • FAX 850-245-4662 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



STATE OF FLORDDA 

OtF 

Office: West Palm Beach Date of Case: 08/05/2013 Case Number: 201 3-1 2375 
Subject: 
274 Main Street 
Sebastian, FL 32958* 
(772) 646-1330 

Source: TOLLE, 
7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, FL 32958 
(772) 589-2043 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 45081 Registered Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy 12013 
Period of Investigation: 11/8/13 — 11/26/13 Type of Report SUPPLEMENTAL-4 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1 )(k)(dd); 465.016(1 )(d)(e)(m)(r); 465.023(1 )(c)-Violate Statute/Rule; Failure 
to perform legal obligation; Impaired from alcohol/drugs/other; Prescription/dispense outside . 
Synopsis: This SUPPLEMENTAL report is predicated upon receipt of a request from 's LOUISE ST. 
LAURENT, Esq. (EX# 54-1) to hand serve the AC packet and VR upon JONES. The previous supplemental 
report details prior unsuccessful attempts at locating accurate, current address information for JONES and 
numerous unsuccessful attempts at contacting and serving JONES. 

On 11/12/13 this investigator called JONES at her last known phone number (772) 646-1330, leaving a 
message requesting her to return the call. There has been no subsequent contact from JONES. On 
11/12/13 this investigator called JONES' mother SHIRLEY JONES (772) 646-1030. SHIRLEY JONES stated 
she was not in town at the moment. I asked if she could tell me how to contact her daughter LATORIA. 
SHIRLEY stated: "I don't see my daughter much. I really don't know where she is." I reminded SHIRLEY that 
she previously told me she would call me back to provide LATORIA's newest address. SHIRLEY stated 
LATORIA moved again since then. I asked SHIRLEY if her statement is that she has no phone number or 
address or way of contacting her daughter LATORIA. SHIRLEY responded by stating: "My daughter is an 
adult; we are not close." I reminded SHIRLEY that she previously told me she was Power of Attorney over 
LATORIA. SHIRLEY stated: "Yah, I have Power of Attorney, but my daughter is an adult, she does her own 
thing." I asked SHIRLEY if Power of Attorney afforded her the authority to make legal decisions on 
LATORIA's behalf and she said: "yes." SHIRLEY then asked again "what is this all about anyway." I 

reminded SHIRLEY that I would be more than happy to discuss the confidential matter with her however she 
would have to provide me documentation of her Power of Attorney authority over LATORIA, as we 
previously discussed and she stated she would provide. SHIRLEY hung the phone up abruptly. 

On 11/15/13 contact was made with Assistant State Attorney WILLIAM LONG, who is prosecuting JONES in 
the involved criminal case ((772) 226-3300]. ASA LONG acknowledged that mail sent from the court to 
JONES to the address of 8565 Dr., Wabasso, FL has been returned by the postal service indicating "not 
deliverable as addressed." LONG confirmed he has no recent accurate address information for JONES. 
LONG also confirms he will not sign off on any more continuances for JONES in the related criminal matter; 
if she fails to show up on her next scheduled appearance (docket call on 12/1 9/1 3), he will issue a bench 
warrant for her arrest. LONG has no authority to force JONES' defense attorney to provide locating info for 
JONES. 

Related Cases: 2013-12406 

lnvestigat te: / Approved By/Date: 

AMY SENIOR, MICELLE MILLER, INV. 

Distribution: Page 1 

NOV 

no 



l INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-12375 

on 11/12/13 Indian River County Sheriffs Detective GREG STANLEY, who was involved in JONES' arrest, 
confirms the address at which JONES was arrested and last known to reside as: 8566 St Dr., Wabasso, 
FL. He does not know why mail sent to that address by DOH and the court would be returned, claiming it to 
be a bad address. STANLEY says perhaps there is confusion on GPS map locators as to whether or not 
this address is actually located in Vero Beach, Sebastian, or Wabasso. STANLEY gave verbal directions to 
the address at which JONES reportedly lives. 

On 11/15/13 this investigator attempted service upon JONES at 6565 st Dr., Wabasso, FL around 
12:45pm. An elderly woman answered the door and confirmed to be JONES' grandmother. She confirmed 
JONES was just there and left to pick up her sister from school and would return shortly. I asked if she 
would please give the envelope containing DOH paperwork to JONES upon her return. The woman was 
reluctant, stating she will just have JONES call me instead and deal with it herself. I gave my business 
card to her and requested she ask JONES to return my call immediately. The woman confirmed JONES 
was currently living at this residence. This investigator then surveilled the residence and waited for JONES' 
return for approximately 45 minutes, without success. 

On 11/15/13 this investigator attempted to make personal contact with JONES' criminal defense attorney, 
but found this office to be closed on Fridays. 

On 11/25/13 this investigator made personal contact with an adult female identifying herself as "ABIGAIL", 
answering the door at 8565 Dr., Wabasso, FL. ABIGAIL confirmed she was a resident of this address. 
ABIGAIL confirmed JONES was a resident of this address, but was not home at the moment. ABIGAIL 
accepted service of the envelope containing the AC and VR for JONES. ABIGAIL was asked to please give 
the envelope to JONES, as it contained important, time-pressed information for JONES from the DOH. 
ABIGAIL agreed. 

EXHIBIT 
S4-1 PSU Request Form, dated 11/8/13 p.3 
S4-2 Affidavit of service, dated 11/26/13 p.4 

Page 2 



FLORIDA DEPARrMENT OF 

HEALT 
PSLJ REQUEST FORM 

Melba L Apellaniz, RSII for Louise 
Wilhite-St. Laurent, Esq. 

TO: Christopher Ferguson 

Date: I 1/8/2013 TO: CSU fl 
Phone #: 850-245-4640 Ext. 8223 CC: Amy Senior 

Case Number: 20 13-12375 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. HL Code: h1146a Status: 87 
Requested Completion Date: 11/28/13 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) C 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code 160) P 

Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 9 Er fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I 50) 

Details: Please hand serve attached Administrative Complaint and proposed Voluntary 
Relinquishment of License form. Please contact me by November 28, 2013, if you are unable to 
serve the Subject. Thank you. 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request 

Last Known Address: 241 d, Avenue, Sebastian, FL 32962; Last Known Name & Phone Latoria Denise Jones, 
R.P.T.; (772) 646-1330; Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl NoZ; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being sent? 
YES No NOTE service requests need to be sent to. appropriate field office. . please send a copy of the orifinal Jnvest&ative Renort without . 
(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 
fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code I 61) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code I 62) 

Add'l Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code I 56) 

Investigative Work Returned to Legal (Activity Code I 

INV FORM 376, Revised 10/11.6/10,06/09,4/09,11/08 Created 4105 

3 

K 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health 

______ 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner 
vs LATORIA DENISE JONES, RPT Case No.2013-12375 

Respondent 
COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 11/25/13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve XX Administrative Complaint 
and related papers; — Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

____________Notice 

to cease and desist; — ESO/ERO and related papers, 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

XX Affiant made personal service on a person at Respondent's usual place of abode over the age of 15 residing 
there, on 11/25/2013. 

_____Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown in 

the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 

computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drive Licenses; and (e) (electric, cable, etc.); 

ant 

State Of Florida 

County Of Palm Beach 

Before me, personally appeared AMY SENIOR whose identity is known to me by Personal Knowledge (type of 
identificafion) and who, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn $A! before me this of November! 2013 

Notary of Florida 

Type or Print Name 

My Commission Expires 

IN 
Cornrnjss ion # EE 845076 

- Expires October18, 2016 

Florida Department of Health 
of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of lnvesbgalions 

900 S US Highway 1, SuIte 207, Jupiter FL 33477 

Phone: -Fax: 561-741-4581 

- IL 

V 

www.FiorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyftA lth 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 



T
al

la
ha

ss
ee

, 
F

lo
rid

a 
32

39
9-

32
65

 

FL
O

R
ID

A
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

H
E
A
L
T
 

P
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
U

ni
t 

40
52

 B
al

d 
C

yp
re

ss
 W

ay
, 

B
in

 #
C

65
 

C
 

r 
nI

H
rv

 B
O

W
E

S
 

02
 

1M
 

$ 
06

.5
1°

 
00

04
28

46
50

 
O

C
T

30
 

20
13

 
M

A
IL

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 Z
IP

C
O

D
E

 3
23

01
 

71
91

, 
10

08
 
1f

l 
57

73
 

94
14

 

'U
 

La
to

ria
 D

en
is

e 
Jo

ne
s,

 R
P

T
 

24
1 

th
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 

S
eb

as
tia

n,
 F

L 
32

96
2 

LE
. 

3f
l 

,tø
i�i

is
 

(\
) 

C
) 

R
E

T
U

R
N

 
T

O
 

S
E

N
D

E
R

 
N

O
 

S
U

C
H

 
N

'J
M

S
E

R
 

U
N

A
B

LE
 

T
O

 

S
c:

 
32

39
93

26
59

9 
-1

 



Received 
flVeStigBtWe Services 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
OCT i 2013 

OF HEALTh 
REPORT 

HO 

Office: West Palm Beach Date of Case: 08/05/2013 Case Number: 201 3-1 2375 
Subject: JONES, Source: ThERESA TOLLE, 
274 Main Street 7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, FL 32958* Sebastian, FL 32958 
(772) 646-1330 (772) 589-2043 
Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 45081 Registered Pharmacy Technician Pharmacy 10/15/2013 
Period of Investigation: 9/26/13 — 10/15/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL-3 
Alleged Violation: F. S. 456.072(1 )(k)(dd); 465.016(1 )(d)(e)(m)(r); 465.023(1 )(c)-Violate Statute/Rule; Failure 
to perform legal obligation; Impaired from alcohol/drugs/other; Prescription/dispense outside . 
Synopsis: This SUPPLEMENTAL report is predicated upon receipt of a request from PSU's LOUISE ST. 
LAURENT, Esq. (EX# S3-1) to hand serve the ESO packet upon JONES. Email contact with ST. LAURENT 
was made to clarify the provided Wabasso address on the request form, was previously confirmed to be a 
non-current/non-accurate address. JONES' address of record (above) has also previously been confirmed to 
no longer be current/accurate. The only known accurate address for JONES is a Post Office Box in 
Sebastian. Many attempts were made beginning on 9/27/13 to reach JONES and /or her mother (SHIRLEY 
JONES), and/or her criminal attorney via telephone to acquire a current physical address. On 9/30/13 
JONES was reached via her phone number of record (772-646-1330). JONES claims she just left to go out 
of town this morning for medical reasons and will return 10/6/13. JONES confirms her address of record 
(274 Main St., Sebastian) is no longer current. JONES claims she recently moved, but does not know her 
new address. JONES states she will call back this investigator within the hour with that new physical 
address. JONES was advised of her obligation to update her address with the Board. JONES states she 
believes her mother picked up the subject notification information mailed by DOH to the Post Office Box of 
record. It was expressed to JONES that it is important that she be familiar with this information and respond 
accordingly. It was also explained to JONES that it is critical she provide her physical address to this 
investigator to accommodate providing her important licensure information in person. JONES confirmed she 
had a criminal attorney, but was not sure if he would be representing her in the DOH matter. A letter of 
representation and contact from her attorney was requested. No such letter of representation has been 
received. Subsequent messages left for JONES to re-contact this investigator have gone unanswered. On 
9/27/13 a call was made to SHIRLEY JONES, mother of subject (772)646-1030]. Either there was a poor 
connection, or JONES' mother hung up the call when the Investigator introduced herself. On 10/1/13 
telephone contact was made with SHIRLEY JONES who advised that LATORIA JONES is out of town and 
having medical issues. SHIRLEY JONES stated LATORIA JONES' new, current street address is: "241 8th 
Avenue, Sebastian 32962." SHIRLEY JONES stated she has Power of Attorney (POA) right now over 
LATORIA JONES, due to LATORIA's medical issues. SHIRLEY JONES stated she would fax 
documentation of that POA to this investigator. No such documentation has been received. Many 
subsequent callsfmessages left for SHIRLEY JONES have not been retumed. 

Contact was made with arresting officer DETECTIVE GREG STANLEY, who confirms he has no updated 
information regarding JONES' whereabouts or current accurate address. STANLEY also has never been 
advised by any of the involved parties that JONES' mother has POA over JONES. 

SUPPLEIUIENTAL REPORT CONTINUED 

Related Cases: 2013-12406 — 

By/Date: 

£2'%iø / I 

AMY SENIOR, INVESTIGATOR, Wl-89 CHRISTOPHER FERGUSON, INW SUPERVIth5R, wi-ioo 
Distribution: HQ/ISU r 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPCjr'tT CASiz NUMBER: 201 2-1 2375 

Multiple detailed messages have been left with JONES' criminal defense attorney BOBBIE GUTTRI DOE (772- 
978-0240] requesting his assistance in providing an accurate street address for JONES. There has been no 
response from Attorney GUTTRIDGE. 

Contact was made with Assistant State Attorney WILLIAM LONG, who is prosecuting JONES in the involved 
criminal case (772) 226-3300]. ASA LONG also has no confirmed current locating information for JONES. 
Since JONES is not on any form of pre-trial or drug-court probationary monitoring; the only court control of 
JONES is through bond. Unless JONES violates bond, there is no reason for the ASA office's intervention 
and contact with JONES; therefore JONES has not willingly or cooperatively had reason to be in 
communication with his office. JONES has a docket call scheduled for 11/4/13 and is ordered to appear in 
court at 9:00am, unless a stipulated motion is requested for an extension. ASA LONG stated he is not 
surprised at all by criminal defense attorney GUTTRIDGE's lack of cooperation in this matter. 

An Accurint report run on 10/1/13 provided no new address information for JONES. Telephonic and faxed 
confirmation from the Postal Service (EX# 53-2) provides the street address known to the Postal Service, 
related to the known P0 Box is: 274 Main Street, Sebastian, FL 32958. 

On 10/9(13 this investigator attempted to locate JONES at her address of record: 274 Main Street, 
Sebastian, FL 32978. This residential home was visually confirmed to be vacated. An attempt was then 
made to locate subject at the new address provided by her mother: "241 8th Avenue, Sebastian 32962." 
GPS, Mapquest, and Google maps all provide directions in response to a search for this address that 
results in Brevard County (Roseland area), which is outside of Sebastian. This destination is a non-existent 
address on a dead end road. 

On 10/9(13 this investigator confirmed with the Sebastian Police Department (SPO) that the address of "241 th Avenue, 1 FL", as provided by JONES mother, is hot an existing address in Sebastian; they 
suggest looking for the same street address in neighboring Vero Beach. SPD checked their records and 
confirmed during a traffic encounter with LATORIA JONES on 4/19/13, she provided the address of 274 
Main St., Sebastian. SPD has no more current address information for JONES. 

On 10/9/13 this investigator attempted to locate JONES at 241 th Avenue, Vero Beach (instead of 
Sebastian) and discovered there is no such house # on th Avenue, Vero Beach. The house numbers went 
from 235 to 245; no 241. 

As of the submission of this report, neither JONES, her mother, or her criminal defense attorney have 
returned repeat messages requesting contact and/or JONES' current accurate street address. An affidavit 
of diligent search is being submitted due to LATORIA JONES being unable to be located for ESO service. 

EXHIBIT 
S3-1 PSU Request Form, dated 9/26/13 p.3 
S3-2 Post Office address request form, received .p.4 
83-3 Affidavit of Diligent Search, dated 10/15/13 p.5 

Page 2 



Missloit 
To prt. promote & improve the 
of all people orida through integrated 

ala, county & effot. 

HEALTh 
Vision; To be the Heáthlest State in the Nation 

Risk Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FAfl 
State Sucgeon General & Seaetaiy 

PSU REQUEST FORM 

- 1WITTER:HealthyFLA 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 

FROM: Tamia Christopher For 

Louise R. St Laurent, Esquire 

TO: Michelle Miller, , Mngr., (Area 9 (WI) 

Date: 9/26/ 3 TO: CSU 

Phone # 850/245/1'144 Ext. 8200 CC: Amy Senior, investigator, Wl-89 

Case Number: 2013-12315 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T. HL Code: HLLI Of B Status: 90 
Requested Completion Date: A.SAP. 

... r:. 
(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 2 fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 
Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code 150) 

Details: For Hand Service of ESO 
Last Known Address: 8565 Drive, Wabasso, Florida 32970 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Latoria Denise Jones, R.P.T., (772) 646-1330 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl If Yes, When? 

D 

Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being 
sent? YES No D NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 

YES, sen4 &cppy of thepriginal e attachments, 
(ISUJCStJ) RESPONSE: 

fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed 
(Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) ] Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 

Email 
TaBAI,aSSe ftdachu ll amp . 

a Myers Lauderdale Pensacola 

Consume 

rSeMces lA 

florida bnent of H.aith 
of Pmeecutbn SeMr.es Unfi 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Ta lIe hassee, FL 32399- 
PHONE; 850-245-4444 • FAX 850-245-4662 

I 

a 
3 



Uct Uti FIV LMSLFIJLI FAX p.1 

10-01-13 14:54 FRQM-DOH ...sA ISli WPB 5618821816 t—eeo F—935 

TopiuIe4 pswTdu I Ste 

S eN peeph in FuatUe rle9mted 
stale, ximly A wnmunhy*1o, 

HEALTh 

Risk Sets 

H. ArsMrenp, fl, FAfl 
Sn Buipom l Bevesy 

To be the HtaflhSsi Vats fleic 

REPLY : DePARTMENT OF HEALTH 
hwesIIgative Seivico Unit 
SODS. U.S. Hwy. 1. SuIts #207 
Jupiter, FL 33477 

To: , •DOI1 Case No. 201 3-1fl75 

Date; 10/1/2013 

ADDRESS INFORMATION REQUEST 

se rurnish this bepartment with the physical attest addressee recorded on the box holders application form. 

Last Name: JONES 

Last Known Post Office BoKAadress:: 780292. an, FL 32978 

r2 7Y 11 FL <9 
I ceflify that Ihe address information for this Individual is required for the performance of the DOHe ofticiel du4Ias 

Amy , Medical Quality Assurance Investloator 
DOH L 
/ FOR POST OFFICE USE ONLY 

MAIL IS DELIVERED TO ADDRESS iVEN 7° 
ADDRESS: 

)NOT KNOWNAT ADDRESS GIVEN 

} MOVED, iEFT NO FORWARDING ADDRESS 

) 'S STREET ADDRESS: 

______ 

) NO SUCH ADDRESS 

OTHER (SPECIFY) — 

aM RETURN ADDRESS LISTED : 
ic DipsrVnni of Nnfth 
OtwI*n Oviuy • flumauofENs,csmsnl o eQS 1, Suite 257, Jupiter 1. 33477 111 

* 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Floilda through integrated 
state, rounty & community efforts. 

HEALTH 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

I 

Petitioner 
vs LATORIA JONES! RPT 

Respondent 
COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states 

Case No.2013-12375 

1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 10/11/131 Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve_ 
related papers; — Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

________Final 

order; 

___________ 

and desist; .1& ESO/ERO and related papers. 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

_______Affiant 

made personal service on 1 
XX Affiant was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 

in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others as detailed in corresponding 
supplemental report. a 
Afflan 

State Of Florida 

County Of Palm Beach 

Before me, personally appeared AMY SENIOR whose identity is known to me by Personal 
identification) and who, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

Sworn to or by Affiant before me this 15th day of October, 2013 

Notary of Florida 

Type or Print Name 

Florida Department of Health 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance Bureau of Investigations 
900$ US Highway 1, Suite 207. Jupiter FL 33477 
Phone: 561-74i-4550 'Fax: 561-741-4581 

Knowledge (type of 

r 
www.Florldasi4eafth.aom ó') 

TWIUER:HealthyFLA 
FACEBOOK:FLDepanentomlearsji 

YCUTUBE: fldoh 

Administrative Complaint and 

___________Notice 

to cease 

ussion i 
DARYL FRUTH 
comrnission# EE 111598 
Expires 23, 2015 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: West Palm Beach Date of Case: 08/05/2013 Case Number: 201 3-12375 
Subject: LATORIA DENISE JONES, RPT Source: THERESA TOLLE, RPH 
274 Main Street 7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, FL 32958* Sebastian, FL 32958 
(772) 646-1030 (772) 589-2043 
Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 45081 Registered Pharmacy Pharmacy 13 

Technician 
Period of Investigation: 08/12/13 — 8/22/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL-2 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1)(k)(dd); 465.01 6(1)(d)(e)(m)(r); 465.023(1)(c)-Violate 
Statute/Rule; Failure to perform legal obligation; Impaired from alcohol/drugs/other; 
Prescription/dispense outside professional practice... 
Synopsis: This SUPPLEMENTAL report is predicated upon receipt of additional information. On 
8/12/13 the "green card" from postal service (EX#S2-1) was returned acknowledging JONES' 
subject notification was retrieved from the P0 Box, Sebastian address. On 8/19/13 the subject 
notification mailed to a possible address for JONES in Wabasso was returned by the postal service 
indicating "Not deliverable/Unable to Forward" (EX#S2-2) 

EXHIBIT 
S2-1 Green postal card returned p.2 
S2-2 Subject notification letter/envelope returned...p.3 

— 
n r 

Related Cases: 2013-12406 

Investigator/Date: Approved By/Date: 

AMY SENIOR, INVESTIGATOR, WI-89 MICHELLE MILLER, INV. MANAGER, WI-102 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

AUG 26 20)3 



C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 T

H
IS

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 

• 
C

om
pl

et
e 

ite
m

s 
1.

 2
, 

an
d 

3.
 A

ls
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
Ite

m
 4

 If
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
D

eh
ve

ry
 is

 d
es

ire
d.

 
• 

P
rin

t y
ou

r 
na

m
e 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

on
 t

he
 r

ev
er

se
 

so
 t

ha
t w

e 
ca

n 
re

tu
rn

 th
e 

ca
rd

 t
o 

yo
u.

 
• 

A
tta

ch
 t

hi
s 

ca
rd

 t
o 

th
e 

ba
ck

 o
f 

th
e 

m
al

ip
re

ce
, 

or
 o

n 
th

e 
fr

on
t 

it 
sp

ac
e 

pe
rm

its
. 

1.
 
N

tic
le

 A
dd

re
ss

ed
 to

: 

C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 T

H
IS

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 O
N

 D
E

L/
vE

ry
 

/á
A

ki
c v 

T
yp

e M
aO

 
U

 E
xp

ie
sa

 M
ai

l 
U

 R
eg

is
te

lle
d 

ID
ne

tu
m

 R
ec

ei
pt

 f
or

 
C

l 
In

su
re

d 
M

ai
l 

U
 C

.O
.D

. 

4.
 

R
es

tr
Ic

te
d 

D
el

iv
er

y?
 (E

*t
a 

F
ee

) 
0 
t 

2.
A

U
de

N
um

be
r 

?0
09

 
23

n 
U

L
JJ

J 
1 

D
om

es
tic

 R
et

ur
n 



M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
q 

.A
ss

;,r
an

ce
 -

 I
nv

es
lg

at
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

90
C

 S
. 

U
S

 H
ig

hw
ay

 O
ne

, 
S

:ii
te

 2
07

 
Ju

pl
ie

;-
, 

F
L 

33
47

7 
A

T
fN

; A
. 

70
09

 
08

20
 

00
01

 

R
E

T
U

R
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
E

Q
U

E
ST

E
D

 

L
A

T
O

R
JA

 D
E

N
IS

E
 J

O
N

E
S 

D
R

IV
E

 
W

A
B

A
SS

O
, 

FL
 3

29
70

 

S
E

N
D

E
R

 
A

S
 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
E

D
 

F
 O

R
 W

A
R

D
 

17
31

 
08

14
 

'4
 

PE
R

SO
N

A
L

 
i E 

3
3
9
 

4
E
 

33
47

7 

R
E

T
U

R
N

 
T

O
 

N
O

T
 

D
E

LI
V

E
R

A
B

LE
 

U
N

A
B

LE
 

T
O

 

a 
20

8/
14

 / 
13

 

B
C
:
 

'
d
 

\ 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 201 2-1 2375 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 : 
THEREA TOLLE, RPH-SOURCE 3 
DETECTIVE GREG STANLEY-WITNESS 3-4 
TARA LYNN KANE, RPT-WITNESS 4-5 
CHERYL GRAGE, RPH-WITNESS 5 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and predicating complaint 6-16 

2. Copy of Notification letters, dated 8/6/13 and 8/8/13 and VR 19-28 

3. Source notification letter, dated 8/7/13 29 

4. Indian River County jail/booking information 30-33 

5. Pharmacy controlled substance inventory from 7/31/13 34-35 

6. JONES' arrest affidavit 36-37 

7. Correspondence to PRN, dated 8/8/13 38-40 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE 
SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(1O)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of 
same are not maintained in the West Palm Beach Investigative Services office 

This exhibit contains confidential records concerning reports of abuse, neglect or 
exploitation of the vulnerable adult, including reports made to the central abuse hotline, and is 
sealed pursuant to section 415.107(1), Florida Statutes 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 201 2-1 2375 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

EX#1 includes copies of sworn witness statements made by Bay Street Pharmacy staff law enforcement. 
EX#2 includes copies of all three subject notification letters mailed to JONES' address of record; address in 
police/arrest records; address provided by JONES' mother to DOH on 8/7/13. 
EX#4 is a printout of booking information from the Indian River County Sheriff's Office (IRCSO) jail website 
confirming JONES' 8/3/13 arrest; that she bonded out on 8/4/13; reported a current address in Wabasso, 
FL; and has a pending corresponding court date on 9/23/13 (Court case# 201 3CF000971A). 
EX#5 is the inventory conducted by pharmacy staff on 7/31/1 3; reflecting 200 Roxicodone pills as missing. 
EX#6 is the arrest affidavit dated 6/3/13 charging JONES with Trafficking Oxycodone and two counts of 
Grand Theft of a Controlled Substance. The affidavit details JONES was caught on video concealing two 
Oxycodone bottles in her clothes and later admitting to this and a prior theft of pharmacy medication, 
STATEMENT OF THERESA TOLLE, RPH-SOURCE 
Bay Street Pharmacy 
7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, FL 32956 
(772) 589-2043 

Owner/Pharmacy Department Manager TOLLE's initiating complaint details that she will be out of 
town/unavailable for interview until after 8/1 2/1 3. Her initiating complaint (EX#1) essentially states: 

• JONES served as a pharmacy technician student in the pharmacy in 2012. Since completing her 
education, JONES had volunteered in the pharmacy while she was in between jobs. In her volunteer 
role she had access to controlled substances. 

• An audit conducted on 7/31/13 indicated 200 Roxicodone pills were missing. JONES "had been in 
the pharmacy on Tuesday 7/30/13 as a volunteer so we immediately suspected her." With the 
assistance of IRCSO, a hidden video camera was installed in the pharmacy on 8/2/1 3. 

• A controlled substance inventory was conducted on 8/2/13 and first thing in the morning on 8/3/13. 
On 8/3/13 JONES was in the pharmacy as a volunteer. When she left, another inventory yielded 200 
generic Oxycodone pills were missing; (two 100 count bottles). 

• The police were called, viewed the video surveillance and could clearly view her stealing two bottles, 
sliding them up her skirt. JONES was subsequently arrested with the bottles in her possession. 
JONES admitted to stealing the medication on 8/3/13, as well as previously on 7/30/1 3. 

INTERVIEW OF DETECTIVE GREG STANLEY-WITNESS 
Indian River County Sheriff's Office (IRCSO) 
41st Avenue 
Vero Beach, FL 32960 
Main (772) 569-6700/Cell (772) 633-4241 

On 8/7/13 and 8/8/13 STANLEY was interviewed by Investigator SENIOR via telephone, essentially stating: 
• He was contacted by Bay Street pharmacy staff who suspected JONES of stealing medication 

based on a discrepancy discovered on 7/31/13. He installed the hidden camera in the pharmacy. On 
8/3/13 JONES was in the pharmacy and after she left, the staff determined medication was again 
missing. JONES was captured on video stealing bottles of Oxycodone and subsequently arrested. 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-1 2375 

Upon questioning, JONES admitted to stealing the missing Oxycodone on 8/3/13 as well as the 
medication that had been documented as missing on/around 7/30/13. JONES' statement was taken 
via audio recording and was not written. There will be no transcription of the audio statement unless 
requested by the State Attorney's Office. 

o JONES reported she was taking the medication and ingesting it for her own use. JONES claimed a 
medical condition, for which the doctors were not prescribing medication adequate enough to 
address her pain. STANLEY did not observe JONES exhibit any indication of impairment. 

o The informal inventory conducted by pharmacy staff on 8/2/13 and 8/3/13 on small pieces of 
notepad paper were likely taken into evidence by the arresting officer at the scene. STANLEY will 
attempt to get copies of these documents out of evidence and forward to DOH in the near future. 

INTERVIEW OF TARA LYNN KANE, RPT-WITNESS 
Bay Street Pharmacy 
7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, FL 32955 
(772) 589-2043 

On 8/6/13 KANE was interviewed by Investigator SENIOR via telephone, essentially stating: 

• Her sworn statement provided to IRCSO (EX#1) is accurate and true. On 7/27/13 KANE was aware 
that the pharmacy was low on Oxycodone 30mg tablets, so she physically looked on the appropriate 
shelf and observed for herself that there were four bottles of Roxicodone 30mg tablets. 

• On 7(31/13 a count was performed indicating 200 Roxicodone pills were missing (EX#5). KANE 
physically observed only one sealed bottle and one partially opened nd bottle of Roxicodone were 
now on the shelf; as opposed to KANE personally observing four Roxicodone bottles just days prior. 

• First thing in the morning of 5/2113 KANE performed a controlled substance inventory count. First 
thing in the morning of 8/3/13 a dispensing report was run and compared to the current inventory; 
confirming the inventory count was accurate. 

• On 5/3/13 JONES arrived while KANE was outside smoking. JONES asked KANE if she could use 
the pharmacy's computer for a personal matter, since she had no internet. KANE told JONES to ask 
the pharmacist on duty: CHERYL ORAGE, RPH. 

• While in the pharmacy, JONES socialized and showed photos to staff. JONES dropped papers, 
which scattered all over the floor. In hindsight, KANE realizes this is something JONES has also 
done previously. When JONES goes in search of collecting her papers scattered all over the floor it 
gives her access to be in the pharmacy area where the medications in question are kept. 

• After JONES left on 8/3/13, GRAGE went to the shelf where Oxycodone are stored, noting bottles 
were knocked over. An immediate inventory yielded 200 pills were missing (two 100 count bottles). 

• JONES interned at this pharmacy July 2012-January 2013. JONES would be present in the 
pharmacy about four times weekly. After January 2013 JONES was no longer training or considered 
an intern in this pharmacy; but beginning about six months ago, JONES would pop into the 
pharmacy about once or twice weekly. JONES would come by to socialize with staff, but mostly to 
stay in touch with TOLLE, who would try to help JONES get a job and or provide her career 
guidance. JONES would have access to the pharmacy during these visits, despite her presence was 
not in any official or formal capacity. 

Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 201 2-1 2375 

• KANE has never witnessed any obvious signs of JONES being impaired. JONES' previous friendly 
demeanor did seem to change recently however; she seems to have become less friendly. KANE 
has not observed any physical signs, symptoms, or indications of impairment by JONES. 

INTERVIEW OF CHERYL GRAGES RPH-WITNESS 
Bay Street Pharmacy 
7746 Bay Street 
Sebastian, FL 32958 
(772) 589-2043 

On 8/7/13 GRAGE was interviewed by Investigator SENIOR via telephone, essentially stating: 

• Her sworn statement provided to IRCSO (EX#1) is accurate and true. GRAGE is a staff pharmacist 
at Bay Street Pharmacy. JONES was a student intern, performing her internship duties affiliated with 
her school through January 2013. After January 2013 when her internship was over, she continued 
to informally volunteer at the pharmacy. JONES had no set volunteer schedule; she was welcome to 
come into the pharmacy to volunteer whenever she wanted. While volunteering, she would put 
medication away, help out at the register, and retrieve medications off the shelf for the pharmacist. 

• On 7/31/13 a Roxicodone discrepancy was discovered (EX#5). As JONES had been in the 
pharmacy volunteering the day prior (7/30/13), she was suspected as being the cause of the 
discrepancy. While JONES had been in on 7/30/13, she told staff she planned on coming back to 
the pharmacy that Saturday (8/3/13) to show everyone photos from her recent graduation. 

• In the interim, IRCSO placed a hidden camera in the pharmacy. On 8/3/13 at 8:40am GRACE 
inventoried the Oxycodone; and concluded there were no discrepancies. 

• On 8/3/13 at approximately 11:15am JONES came into the pharmacy and asked GRACE to use the 
computer in the pharmacy office for a personal task. GRACE agreed. JONES sat at the desk in the 
back and then came behind the pharmacy counter to show staff photos. 

• Earlier that morning, in anticipation of JONES' arrival, GRACE purposely laid out medications on the 
pharmacy filling counter that would normally be put away on the shelf near the Oxycodone. GRACE 
instructed staff to not put these medications away; to intentionally leave them out. GRACE 
witnessed JONES go over and pick those medications up and proceed to put them away. GRACE 
witnessed JONES go into the bay, but GRACE intentionally did not follow or watch JONES closely, 
to purposely allow JONES the privacy and room to steal the medication if that was her intention. 
GRAGE was aware the installed hidden camera would capture any such behavior. 

• JONES left the pharmacy at approximately 11:45am. Another inventory was then done. GRACE 
noticed Oxycodone bottles knocked over. The inventory yielded 200 Oxycodone pills were missing. 

• GRACE advises that the "before and after" inventories conducted on 8/3/13 were written on small 
pieces of notepad paper and handed over to the police; the pharmacy kept no copy. 

• GRAGE reports never observing any indication of JONES being impaired. 

INVESTIGATOR'S : 
On 8/6/13 and 8/7/13 messages were left for JONES on the voice mail of her phone number of record: (772) 
646-1330. On 8/7/13 SHIRLEY JONES, identifying herself as JONES' mother returned the messages and 
provided her own phone number (772) 646-1030. SHIRLEY JONES advised that her daughter, LATORIA JONES 
has been hospitalized for about 2-3 days for Sickle Cell Disease and was still currently in the hospital. SHIRLEY 
JONES stated LATORIA JONES is now residing with her and can receive mail at: P0 Box 780292, Sebastian, 
FL 32978. She reports no physical house address is available; only this P0 Box. A message was left to please 
have LATORIA JONES contact this investigator when possible. 

Page 5 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


IKLSU :: Lommumty :: online lools :: Inmate Search :: 2013-00003529 Page 4 of 7 

Eli I 
OPEN/CLOSE 

I Subject Data 

El I 
OPEN/CLOSE 

I Booking Details 

field :: :: value :: 

name ? Jones, Latoria Denise 
date Of 

Tuesday, July 28, 1987 (Age at booking : 26) 
address 8565 61ST DRIVE 
' Wabasso, FL 32970 

:: field :: :: value:: 
arrest date / time ' Saturday. August 3, 2013 at 2:07 PM (Eastern) 
arrest location ? 8565 61st Drive Wabasso Fl 
arresting agency ' Indian River County Sheriffs Office 
booking date ? Saturday, August 3. 2013 at 5:00 PM (Eastern) 
bookingnumber ? 2013-00003529 
case number 2013-00121660 

http://www. munity/onhine-tools/inmate-recordssearch/20 13-00003529 8/6/2013 



IKUSU :: Community:: Unirnelools :: Inmate Kecords Search:: 20fl-00003529 S of 7 

field :: :: value:: 
commissary number !,*. 358131 
make phone calls Yes 
released Yes 
total bond amount 1 $0.00 

PLEASE NOTE - The Scheduled Release Date is subject to change. Please call Booking Release for 
an up to date scheduled release date at (772)-978-6373. 

C s) OPEN/CLOSE 
Booking Charges 

field :: :: value 
Traf Oxycodone 

Bond Number] 2013-00004151 
Bond Set Amount] $75,000.00 charge #1 Bond Set Type] Cash/Surety 

Disposition / Date I Posted Bond on Saturday August 3,2013 
Court Date / Time] Monday September 23, 2013 at 8:30 AM 
Felony Grand Theft 

Bond Number] 2013-00004152 
Bond Set Amount] $5,000.00 

charge #2 I Bond Set Type] Cash/Surety 

Disposition / Date] Posted Bond on Saturday August 3, 2013 
Court Date/Time] Monday September 23, 2013 at 8:30 AM 
Bond Remarks] Grand theft controlled substance 
Felony Grand Theft 

I Bond Number] 2013-00004153 
- I Bond Set Amount] $5,000.00 

charge #3 Bond Set Type] Cash/Surety 

Disposition / Date J Posted Bond on Saturday August 3, 2013 
Court Date / Time J Monday September 23, 2013 at 8:30 AM 
Bond Remarks] Grand theft controlled substance 

OPEN/CLOSE ) Subject Characteristics 

field :: :: value 
eye color Brown 
gender Female 
hair color! 7 Black 

13-00003529 8/6/2013 



IKUSU :: Community :: Online Fools :: Inmate Records Search:: 2013-00003529 Page 6 of 7 

:: field :: :: value 
height 55'(1.7m) 
primary language 
weight ? 1251bs. (56.8kg) 

A /CLOSE 
Release Data 

field :: :: value:: 
Posted Bond Bamett Bail Bonds ft AS6K-41 1569, AS6K-41 1568 comments r 

and AS100K-18528 
release date 1 Sunday August 4, 2013 at 10:39 AM 
release reason Posted Bond 
released by A375 - Dorsett, D. 

Posted Bond Barnett Bail Bonds ft AS6K-41 1569, AS6K-41 1568 released to 
AS100K-18528 

Arrest and booking information on our public web site is considered public record information 
pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida statutes, the information will remain posted absent a court order. 
FDLE provides a service through which certain criminal records can be expunged ( removed from 
their records) or sealed (placed under highly restricted access). The laws and rules which govern 
expunction or sealing of criminal history record(s) include: section s.943,0585 - , Florida 
statutes and Chaøter I lc-7. Florida administrative . For more information, forms and the process 
regarding seal and expungement of arrest records, please refer to the FDLE . 
Data was last modified on at EST. 

Print this page a•Back a page of page 

agency partners 

These agencies provide services to the public related to the operations of the IRCSO. 

I 
CRIME DOESNI PAY 

, t-7 .prg 

http://wvw.ircsheriff.org/comnunity/online-tools/imnaterecordssearcw2o 13-00003529 8/6/2013 



.. '.J111111h b .. ., LVXJUUUUJJI,y rage / 01 / 

inmate tally 

This panel lists the current number of inmates residing in the IRCSO Jail. 

429 

calls for service 

This panel lists the current active calls that our 911 dispatchers are handling. 

16 

*The total number of calls includes incidents that are currently assigned plus any pending incidents 
that have not been dispatched. 

© 2013 Indian River County Sheriffs Office (IRCSO ). All Rights Reserved. 

website leRalitiesiprivacy email 

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address 
released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, 
contact this office by phone or in writing 

i * 

p 
13-00003529 8/6/2013 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Heatthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307018 

BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON 
4773 CARIBBEAN CIRCLE 
KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL 32656 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Directdf 
/A0ARD OF PHARMACY 
V Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.floridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FUjepartmentotHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 VOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community effort. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307018 

BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON 
115 LAWRENCE BLVD 
KEYSTONE HEIGHTS, FL 32656 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/ /cr 
Executive Dire'ctor 

7 BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PRONE: (850) 245-44.4.4 FAX (850) 245-4791 YOIJTUBE: fldoh 



TO: 

MEMORANDUM 
Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Ana Gargollo-McDonald, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T. 

DOH Case Number 2013-07018 

DATE: November , 2013 

Mission: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTA 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Swg eon & Secretary 

Enclosed you will find materials in the 
final agency action for the February 
information is provided in this regard. 

above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
12, 2014 meeting.of the board. The following 

Subject: 
Subject's Address of 
Record: 
Enforcement Address: 

Subject's Additional 
Address: 
Subject's License No: 
Licensure File No: 

Initial Licensure Date: 

Board Certification: 
Required to Appear: 

Beverly Lynn Jackson 
115 Lawrence Blvd 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 

115 Lawrence Blvd 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 
4773 Caribbean Circle 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 
38762 Rank: 
39802 

RPT 

7/22/2011 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: 

No 

No 

No 

Allegation(s): 
Prior Discipline: 

465.016(1)(m), FS (2012) 
None 

Probable Cause Panel: 
Subject's Attorney: 
Complainant/Address: 
Materials Submitted: 

Pro Se 

August 8, 2013; Griffin & Mesaros 

DOH/ISU-Jacksonville 

Memorandum to the Board 
Voluntary Relinquishment 
Administrative Complaint 
Board Notification Letter 
Supplemental Investigative 
Election of Rights 
Emergency Suspension Order 
Order to Compel Examination 

I 

Report with Exhibits 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General ' Prosecution Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

niaiLaddress: 2585 Merthants Row - Suite 105 

Suite 105 
PHONE 850/2454w 'FAX 650/245-4533 

www.FloridasHeaith.com 
TWflTER:HealthyFLA lealth 

YOUTUBE: ftdoh 



Final Investigative Report with Exhibits 



15: SB 3524. j402 MALLARDS PACK F'q- SHIP 
FILED 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DEPUTY CLERK 

CLERK .YtngeISanilers 
DATE OCT U 2013 ——- 

DEPARThEN-!- OF l-IEALTh, 
Petitioner, 

v. 
DON Case No. 2013-07018 

Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.PJ., 
Respondent. 

I 

VOLUF.ITAFy OF RE(1&TMTION 

Respondent Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T., Registration No. 38762, hereby voluntarily 
relinquishes her registration as a pharmacy technidan in the State of Aoricia and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary is to avoid further 
administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the 
Board cii Pharmacy (hereinafter "the Board") of this Voluntary shall be constnjea as 
disciplinary action against Respondenrs pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(Q florida 
Stat ites. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for registration as a pharmacy technician in the 
State of Flonda. 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing as a phamiacy technician 
immediately upon executing this Voluntary Respondent further agrees to refrain 
from practicing as a y technician until such time as this Voluntary is 
presented to the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. to consideration and resolution of this actjop by the Board in a Public 
meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory pthilege of iality of Section 10) Florida Sththtes, and waives a 
determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, 
pursuant to ion 4S6.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the the investigative report of 



D9/25/2813 15:50 352473t,-,o2 PACK N brlIP PAGE 03/84 

the Department of Health, and ali other inforniation obtained pursuant to the 
investigation in the above-styjed action. By signing this waiver, Respondent understands that the 
record and complaint become public record and remain public record and ¶:hat infoniiauon 
immedlat&y to the public per Sedon 456.073(10), Porida 

. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Respondent agrees to 
wBive all rigtt to seek judicial review of, or to otherwise challenge or contest the vafldity of; this 
Voluntary and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this--Voluntary . 

, Petitioner arid Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's acceptance of this 
Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and cost rejats to the 
prosecution or of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

in with the Board's considei-atjon of this Voluntary 
Respondent agrees that cunsideration of this Voluntary and other related materials by 
the Board shall not prejudice or preducie the Board, or any of its members, from further participation, 

or r ion of these proceedings If the tErms of this Voluntary are not 
accepted by the Board. 

DAThD this day of 

STATE OF ftORiQA 
C./4y 

Before me, Personally appeared aC. , whose identity is known to me - and who, under oath, ledges that 
his signature above. Swam to anØ subscribed before me day of 

My Commission Expires: 

J#M B. SUTER 1 2 

N MY 

CXPIRES Os. 2014 
- 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARIMEIS1T OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE NO. 2013-07018 
BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, R.P.T., 

RESPONDENT. 

___I 

ATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through undersigns 
counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T., and in support thereof 
alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes (2012); 
Chapter 456, Florida Statutes (2012); and Chapter 465, lorida Statutes 

(2012). 

At all limes materiaL to this Complaint, Respondent was 

registered to practice as a pharmacy technician pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes (2012), having been issued registration number RPT 

.. 
. 

9 



• 38762. 

3. 's address pf record is 115 Lawrence Boulevard, 
Keystone Heights, Florida 32656. 

4. At alt times material to this Complaint, Respondent was 

employed by Waigreens Pharmacy ("Waigreens") located at 15 N. 

Lawrence Boulevard, Keystone Heights, Florida 32656. 

5. Between 2012 and 2013, Respondent diverted dosage units of 
controlled substances from Waigreens, including oxycodorte pills. 

6. 
Oxycodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to 

• Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), oxycodone is a Schedule I 
controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a 

currently accepted but severely restricted l use in treatment in the 
United States, Abuse of oxycodone may lead to severe psychologicaj or 

• physical dependence. 

7. On or about April 18, 2013, H.G., the lgreens Loss 
Prevenuon Manager, contacted Clay Sheriff's Office and reported 
Respondent's theft of oxycodone pills from Waigreens. 

8. H.G. reported to Officer 8.3. that on or about Apdf 9, 2013, 

DOR v. Lynn Jackson RPT 2 l Case No.: 2013-07018 

Jo 



F-LG. reviewed Waigreens video surveillance records showing Respondent 

dng out dosage units of oxycodone ahd then placing her left hand into 

her pocket. 

9. H.G. stated to Officer B.S. thatH.G. obtained additional video 

surveillance on or about April 15, 2013, and April 16, 2013, showing 

Respondent pocketing dosage units of Oxycodone. , On or about April 24, 2013, Officer B.S. interviewed 

Respondent at Waigreens. Respondent to Officer B.S. that she 

stole dosage units of oxycodone from Waigreeris during the past year of 
her employment. 

11. Respondent signed a Sworn statement regarding her 

involvement in the thefts. 

12. Respondent further stated to Officer B.S. that she stole 

oxycodone pills by counting out extra pills when she filled prescriptions for 

Waigreens customers and placing.the extra pills in her pocket. 

13. Respondent stated to Officer B.S. that she has been addicted to 

oxycodone for the past year and that she diverted oxycodone tablets from 

Waigreens for her personal use. 

3 DOI-( v. Lvnii Jackson, Rfl i Case No.: dB 



14. On or about ' 24, 2013, Officer B.S, arrested Respondent 
and charged her with grand theft of a controlled substance. 

On or about May 9, 2013, the Department issued an Order to 
Compel Examination ("Order") against Respondent requiring that she 
submit to a mental and physical examination at the Universfty of Florida, 
Florida Recovery Center located in e, Florida. 

16. On or about June 24, 2013, Dr. S.T. evaluated Respondent 
pursuant to the Order. 

17: During Dr. S.T.'s evaluation, Respdndent submifted to urine, 
hair, and blood drug screens. The urine drug, screen returned positive for 
cocaine and 

18. According to Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), 
cocaine is a Schedule II conb-ofled Substance that has a high potential for 
abuse and has a currently accepted but severely restricted medical use in 
treatment in the United States. Abuse of cocaine may lead to severe 

or physicai dependence. 

19. Oxymorphone is prescribed to treat , According to Section 
893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), oxymorphone is a Schedule i 
DOH v. Bevcrly Lynn Jackson, Rfl 4 
DON Case No.: 2013-37018 



controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a 

currently accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the 
United States. Abuse of oxyniorphone may lead to severe psychological or 
physical dependence. , During Dr. S.T.'s evaluation, Respondent admitted to abusing 

cocaine, benzodiazepines, opiates, and cannabis. 

21. Respondent stated that cocaine and opiates were her drugs of 
choice and that she used crack ' three days prior to Dr. S.T'S 

evaluation. 

22. Dr. 5.1. diagnosed with active opioid and cocaine 
dependence, cannabis dependence in partial remission, and 
benzodiazepine abuse. 

23. Benzodiazepines are a dass of drugs that cause sedation and 
can be habit forming. Most benzodiazepjnes are Schedule w lled 
substances according to Section 893.03, Florida Statutes (2012) and are, 

typically prescribed to treat anxiety or insomnia. 

24. Opiate, or oploid, drugs have similar actians as the opium 

'Crackcocajnejsa form of cocaine that has been ssed to make rock crystal and is ingested by smoking., 

5 DOR v. y Lynn. , RPT 
DOH Case No.: 18 - 





, Respondent violated Section 5.016(fl(m), Florida Statutes 

(2012), by being• unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and 

safety to patients due to her drug addiction and abuse of controlled 

substances including, but not limited to, cocaine, opiates, benzodiazepines, 

and cannabis. 

WHEREFORE, utioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's registration, 

restriction of practice, Imposition of an administrative fine, a 

reprimand, placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, 

refund of fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other 
reflef that the Board deems appropriate, 

7 DOH v. Beverly Lynn Rfl 
DOa Case No.: 2013.07Ut8 



SIGNED this K day of 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and 

• Secreta of Health 

HEALTH Ca le Same 
DEPUTY CLERK As istant General l CLERK 

DON Prosecution Services Unit 2013 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
lahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 100159 

• (P) 850/245-4444 x8102 
(F) 853/245-4662 
(E) casie barnette@doh 

PCP: August 
PCP Members: Cynthia It Griffin, Pharmo and Jeffrey J, Mesaros, R.Ph, 

DON v. Beverly Lynn Jackson; Case No. 2013-07018 

l v. Beverly n Jackson, RPT B 

DOH Case 2013-07018 



• ,407 CE RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to be represented by Counsel or other representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and -examine and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is 

• IPLICE REGARDING ESSMENT OFCOST5 
Respondent is placed °nnotice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOFf v. Beverly Lynn Jackson RPT 9 Don Case ,.: 8 
- 7 



Mission: 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

• .f h • Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Beverly Jackson 
115 Lawrence Blvd 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 

Beverly Jackson - 

4773 Caribbean Circle 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form you agreed to the following: 

As you are aware by signing 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)ffl, Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a registered pharmacy technician in the State of Florida; 
and 

• Voluntarily relinquishing your Florida pharmacy license may have an effect on pharmacy licenses 
you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understood, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245- 
4444. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy will take up your 
request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their next regularly scheduled meeting. You are not 
required to attend the meeting. 

AM/ab 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express-maitaddress: 2585 Merchants Row—SuitelOS 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 • FAX 8501245-4683 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Vision To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

November 6, 2013 

Re: DON vs. Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P,T. 
DOH Case Number: 201 3-07018 

Dear. Ms. Jackson: 



UW2S121j13 15:50 
I 

, MALLARDS PACKN SHIP PASE @4/04 

ELECTION OF RIGHTS 

DOH v, Beverly Lynn 1 RPJ. Case No, 2013-07018 

PLEASEISELECT,0P4LY1 OF TUE 3 OPTIONS 
An of Rights is if you do not understand these options please consult wit your attorney or contact theattotney for the Prosecution Unit at (lie addresslphone number Hated at the bottom of this fbrrni. 

OPTiON 1. 

_____ 

I do not dispute the ions of fact in the istrative Complaint, but do wish to be accorand a hearing, pumuant to Secton Statutes, at whichtlme I wiii be permUted to submit oral and/or evidence in mitigation of the compisinitto the Scant 

OPTiON 2. l do not dispute the allegation, of fact contained in the Administrative laint and waIve my light to object orto be heard. Bout enter a final order pursuant ion 120.57, Florida Statutes, 
OPI1ON . I do of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint and requesj this to be considered a petition for formal hearing, pursu&it to Sections l?O.5S9(2)(a) and 1), Florida Statutes, before an Administrative Law Judge appointed by the Division. of .Administratiue Hearings. I specifically disnute the following peragraphs of the MminIBtntIVC Complaint h 

to me or by 
that his/her signature 

In to theabove I also elect the following; 
I accept the terms of the Settiement Stipulation have signed and am returning the Settlement Stipulation or I am interested in settling this case. 

i do not wish to continue precticing. have signed and returned the voluntary of registration form, if it has bean provided, 

Regardless of which option I have selected, I understand that I will be given notice of Urns, date, and when this matter is to be considered by the Hoard for l Action. Section 120.573, Fiorida Statutes, is not available in this matter. 

(Please sign and wrnpiete u the information beiow.) 

R- 4o 

STATE OF 
COUNITYOF 

Lic;No. 

Phone No ckL4 

Fax No. 

ersonaiiy ap cared L*' 9/, 0 identity is 
(type of ldenhiflcation) and who, acknowledges appears above, 

SWfltQPçedbY Affiant before me this 2S 
Notary of Florida 

Type or Print Name 
PLEASE MAIL AND/OR PM COMPLETED FORM TO: , Sarnette, Assistant General Counsel, Doll, Prosecution SeMces Unit, 4Osa Held Cypress Way, Sin C46, Tallahassee, Florida Telephone Number: (050) 246-4640; 
FAX (860) 245-4652; TOD 1-800-965477 

B. S 

2013. 

EXPIRES Jenuary 05, 2014 



• STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Jacksonville 

I 
Date of Comp'aint: 05/02/13 Case Number: RPT 201 3:07018 

Subject: BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, RPT Source: DOH / JACKSONVILLE ISU 
115 Lawrence Blvd. 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 
(B) (352) 473-4621 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 38762 Registered Pharmacy 08/19/13 

Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 08/01 / I 3—08/1 9/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 
Alleged Violation: SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: 
This supplemental report is predicated upon the receipt of a request from PSU for this office to hand serve the 
attached Voluntary Relinquishment of Registration, (VR) to JACKSON, and for this office to obtain any and 
all court documents related to Case # S000AMX against JACKSON, (Exhibit , 
On 08/13/13, this Investigator delivered the VR to JACKSON's mother at her current place of residence, 
7473 Caribbean Circle, Keystone Heights, FL 32656, while asking for JACKSON to contact this Investigator 
when she received the yR. On 08/15/13, JACKSON did contact this Investigator, and confirmed she 
willing to sign the form and will go to a notary in the neighborhood and sign it at that time. JACKSON stated 
she would mail it back to this Investigator as soon as possible. As of this writing, the• VR has not been 
received. When it is received, it will be forwarded to PSU. 

On 08/16/13, Investigator TODD MCCORMICK of this office presented to the Clay County Clerk of Courts 
and did obtain the court records related to the case number noted above. The records obtained include: 

• Felony Case Summary. 
• Application for Criminal Indigent Status. 
• Provisional Order Appointing Public Defender. 
• Notice to Appear. 
• Certified copy of the Order of Dmg Offender Probation, including the Plea of Guilty and Negotiated 

Sentence. 
• Copy of the Information, 
• Clay County Office of the Sheriff Adult Arrest Report / Adult Notice to Appear. : 

S-i. Supplemental request and attachments 2-5 
S-2. Court documents 6-30 

Related : None 

Investigator/Date: , : HQ/ISU 

Jate: 

INV Form 300 7/02 - A 
'< 

CØ 



I A DBPARTMENT OP 

HEALT 
PSU REQUEST FORM 

- 
FROM: Chris Byrne for Casie Barnette, TO; ISU Ryan Heal 
Esq. - 

Date: August I, 2013 TO: CSLJ 

Phone#: (850) 245-4444x81 IS CC: Charles Coats, Ill 

Case Number:2013.07018 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject aeverly Lynn Jackson, RPT HLCode:HlI I OSb Status: 90 
Requested Completion Date: ASAP 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

D Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I SO) 

Details: Please obtain any and all court documents related to ,Case# 10201 0AMX 
against Subject. Also, please serve Subject the attached VoluntarjiRelinquishment of Registration. 
I am including Subject's address of record below. However, I noticed that you were able to serve 
Subject previously at her mother's address at 7473 Caribbean Circle, Keystone Heights, Florida 
32656. Thank you. 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request: 
Last Known Address:! IS Lawrence Blvd., Keystone Heights. FL 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Beverly Lynn Jackson; (352) 473-4621 Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This individuaU YES Nofl; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally lced by CStJ or in an area office different from where this service request is being ? YES No E NOTE: All process service requests need.to be sent to appropriate field office. 

lease send: a copy of the original Investigative without attaàhrnents. 

(ISU/CSLJ) RESPONSE: 
fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Completed (Activity 162) 

fl Add'! Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Investigative Work Returned to Legal (Activity Code 156) :2 tc' - 
- k_s. fry 

r 

I 
INV FORM 376, Revised 10111 • ,11108 Created 4/05 



FLORIDA DEPART MENT T 
(Activity Code 157) I Cancelled by (Activity Code 158) 

INV FORM 376, Revised 0/Il 0, 06/09, 4/09,11/08 Created )05 

fl Cancelled by Legal 

Email to: . 

Tallahassee Jack.sonvjfle St. Pete Tampa Qth.nt West Palm 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARThENTOF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. DOH Case No. 2013-07018 

Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T., 
Respondent. 

I 
VOLUNTARY REUNOUISHMENTT OF REGISTRATION 

Respondent Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T., Registration 38762, hereby voluntarily 

relinquishes her registration as a pharmacy technician in the State of lbrida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relipquishrnent is to avoid further 

administrative action with respect to this cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the 

Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter "the Board") of this Voluntary shall be construed as 

disciplinary action against Respondent's registration pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida 

Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for registration as a pharmacy technician in the 

State of Florida. 

3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing. as a pharmacy technician 

immediately upon executing this Voluntary Relinquishment. further agrees to refrain 

from practicing as a phan-nacy technician until such time as ] Voluntary Relinquishment is 

presented to the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of by the Board in a public 

meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the consequences o(so doing, hereby waives the 

statutory privilege of confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Fldrida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the Department when appropriate, 

pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of 



the Department of health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this waiver, Respondent understands that the 

record and complaint become public record and remain public' and that information is ly accessible to the public per Section 456.073(10), Florida Sthtutes. 

5. Upon the Boards acceptance of this Voluntary Relfriquishment, Respondent agrees to 

waive all rights to seek judicial review, of, or to otherwise 'contest the validity of, this 

Voluntary Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinquishment, . . 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upOn the Board's acceptance of this 

Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own attorney'skfees and costs related to the 

prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent in connection with the Board's consideration o,f.ffiis Voluntary Relinquishment. 

Respondent agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishmentand other related materials by 

the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of its members, from further participation, 

consideration, or resolution of these proceedings if the this VOluntary Relinquishment are-not 

accepted by the Board, ' 

DATED this 
' day of . 2013. 

Beverly Lynn R.P.T. 
STATE OF FLORiDA .'- : 
Before me, personally appeared 

,.whose 

identity is known to me 
by 

________________________________ 

(type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this, - , day of 

___________________ 

2 

K 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


ptufl2 
DE OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Jacksonville Date of Complaint: 05/02/13 Case Number: RPT 2013-07018 
Subject: BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, RPT 

115 Lawrence Blvd. 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 
(B) (352) 473-4621 

Source: DOH / JACKSONVILLE ISU 

Prefix: License #: Frofession: Board: Report iDate: 

RPT 38762 Registered Pharmacy 06/05/13 
Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 05/31/13—06/05/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 
Alleged Violation: SEE FINAL REPORT 

Synopsis: 

This supplemental report is predicated upon the receipt of a request from PSU for this office to hand serve the 
attached Order Compelling Evaluation.to JACKSON, (Exhibit S-i). 

On 06/05/13, this Investigator presented to JACKSON's mother's place of residence at 7473 
Circle, Keystone Heights, FL 32656, and hand served the Order to JACKSON, (Exhibit S-2). 

Attachments: 
S-I. Supplemental request and attachments 24 
S-2. Affidavit of Service 9 

S ) ;a 

rn 
— C 

• 

. .0 ni 0 - - . -. r .- - 

— n 7 0 
01 > 
•-n r 

Related Complaint: None 

-• Approved By/Date: 

Ryan F. Heal , 
Medical lpracti e Investigator (JI-8 1) 06/05/13 District Manager (JI- 15) 6 
Distribution: HQ/ISU 9 l Page 1 

INV Form 300 7/02 

STATE OF FLORIDA 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

PSU REQUEST FORM 

Gwendolyn Swatts, AAII for Casie 
Barnett, AGC 

TO: Charles C. Coats, III, District 
. 

Manager 

Date: 13 TO: CSU 
Phone#: 850-245-4444 Ext. 8214 

• CC: Ryan F. Heal, MMII 01-81) 

CastNumber: 201 3-07018 Pharmacy .. . 

Subject: Beverly L.Jackson, R.PT HLCode: HLL.105B Status: 60 
Requested Completion Date: 13 t 
(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 

fl Additional Information Requested(Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code 150) 

Details: Please hand serve the attached Order Compelling Evaluation. Please contacts Gwen Swats 
at 850-245-4444, Ext 8214 with an. update before June 7, 2013 if you are unable to serve the 
Subject Thank you. 

*The following additional information is needed for each service request: 

Was :tHstase originalJy•.worked hy.CSUorin an areaoffice .differentfroni wherethis service request is being sent? 
YES D** No NOTE All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office 
**IF:YES..pleaseiefld investigative;Rebortwithout . Y) RESPONSE: 
fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed (Activity Code 162) 

fl Add'I Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Investigative Work Returned to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

C 
— o rn C 

— l 
-:7 , r 

Last Known Address: 115 Lawrence Blvd., Keystone Heights, FL 32656; Last Known Name & Phone: Beverly L. 
Jackson, R.PT, (904)263-7667) (Cell) or 1(B). 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl , When? - 

INY FORM 376, Revised 10/Il, 6110, 06/09, 4/09,11/08 created 4/05 
c— 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT QF HEALTH 

In Re: The Order Compelling Examination of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, 

RPT 38762 
Case No: 20 13-07018 

ORDER COMPELLING AN EXAMINATION 

The Department of Health (Department) is the state agency charged with 

regulating the practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes 

(2012); Chapter 456, Florida Statutes (2012); and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

For probable cause shown and pursuant to the authority vested in the 

• Department by Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes (2012), you are hereby 

ordered to report and submit to a mental and physical examination to be 

conducted by the following named physician at the date, time and place 

indicated. 

Scott Teitelbaum, M.D. 
UF, Florida Recovery Center 

Gainesville, FL 32606 
(352) 265-5549 

• ON 
Friday, June14, 201.3 @ 9:00 a.m. 

The above-directed mental and physical examination is for the purpose of 

obtaining, examination reports and expert opinion and testimony concerning 



Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT. 
License Number RPT 38762 
Case Number 2013-07018 

your ability to practice as a registered pharmacy technitian with reasonable skill 

and safety pursuant to Sections 456.072(1)(z) and 465.016(1)(m), Florida 

Statutes (2012), and for introduction into evidenöe at any administrative 

hearing to be conducted on any uve complaint filed against you 

which may allege a violation of Section and/or 465.016(1)(m), 

Florida Statutes (2012). This Order is predicated uponcthe following Findings of 

Fact and Conclusions of Law. . 
1. At all times material to this Order, Beverly. Lynn Jackson, RPT (Ms. 

Jackson), was a registered pharmacy technician within the state of Florida, 

having been issued registration number RPT 38762. 

2. At all times material to this Order, Ms. Jáékson was employed by 

lgreens Pharmacy ("Walgreens") at 115 N. Lawrence Boulevard, Keystone 

Heights, Florida 32656 between 2011 and 2013. 

3. Between 2012 and 2013, Ms. Jackson dI'ierted 30 to 40 units of 

controlled medication from lgreens, including Oxycodohe 

4. Oxycodone is commonly prescribed to trEat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), Oxycbdohe is •a Schedule II 

controlled substance that has a high potential for thbüse and has a currently 

2 



Beverly Lynn Jackson; RPT, 
Number 38762 

Case Number 2013-07018 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. 

Abuse of Oxycodone may lead to severe psychologicalor physical dependence. 

5. On or about April 18, 2013, lgreens' LOs� Prevention Manager, 

H.G., contacted Clay County Sheriff's Office and repoii.ed Ms. Jackson's theft of 

Oxycodone pills from Waigreens. 

6. H.G. reported to Officer B.S. that on or about April 9, 2013, H.G. 

reviewed lgreens' video surveillance records showing Jackson counting 

out dosage units of Oxycodone 5mg and then placing her left hand into her 

pocket. 

7. H.G. stated to Officer B.S. that H.G. ottàined additional video 

surveillance on April 15, 2013, showing Ms. Jackson pocketing two pills of 

Oxycodone 5mg. H.G. further reported that videosurveillance on April 16, 

2013, showed Ms. Jackson pocketing two pills of Oxycodone 10mg. 

8.. On or about April 24, 2013, Officer B.S. ir rviewedMs. Jackson at 

lgreens. Ms. Jackson admitted to Officer B.S. that stole 30 to 40 units of 

Oxycodone 5mg, 10mg, 20mg, and 30mg from during the past year 

of her employment Ms. Jackson signed a sworn .itatement regarding her 

involvement in the thefts. 

9. Ms. Jackson further stated to Officer BPS. That she stole Oxycodone 

3 



BSerIy Lynn 1 RPT. 
UceWse Number RF'T a8762 
Case Number 2013-070t8 

pills by counting out extra pills and placing them in her pocket when she filled 

prescriptions for lgreens customers. 

10. Ms. Jackson stated to Officer 6.5. that she has been addicted to 

Oxycodone for the past year and diverts the pills for personal use. 

11. On or about April 24, 2013, Officer B.S. arrested Ms: Jackson and 

charged her with grand theft of a controlled 

12. Section 456.072(1)(z), Florida Statutes (2012), states, in pertinent 

part, "the department shall, have, upon a finding of the. State Surgeon General 

or the State Surgeon General's designee that probable cause exists to believe 

that the licensee is unable to practice because of tE.I 'reasons stated in this 

paragraph, the authority to issue an order to compel a licensee to submit to a 

mental or physical examination by physicians designated by the department" 

coNcLusIoNs OF LAW 

1. The Department of Health, by and through ue State Surgeon General, 

has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to Chapters 456 and 465, Fiorida 

Statutes (2012) 

2. Ms. Jackson's diversion of 30 to 40 tablets of Oxycodone over the last 

year and her admitted addiction to Oxycodone gives a use to believe that Ms. 

Jackson is impaired. Therefore, the State Surgedn General, through his 

4 



S 

Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT. 
License Number RPT 38762 

Number 2013-Q7OJ.8 

probable cathiê exists to believe 

registered pharmacy technician 

nt to ions 456.072(1)(z) 

A thorough'2nd complete mental 

necessary té,: protect the public 

registered pharmacy technician 

Ms. 

with 

and 

and 

Sd 

with 

undersigned designee, concludes that 

Jackson is unable to practice as a 

reasonable skill and safety, pursua 

465.016( 1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012). 

physical examination of Ms. Jackson is 

ensure that she is able to practice as a 

reasonable skill and safety. 

3, In accOrdance with the authority vested in 

Health under Chapters 456 and 465, Florida 

General, through his undersigned designee, 

Florida Statutes (2012), should be enforced. 

the 

the 

that 

Department of 

State Surgeon 

456.072(1)(z), 



erly Lynn Jackson, RPT. 
• License Number RPT 38762 

Case Number -07018 

DONE and ORDERED by the Department of Nealth on this ( day 

of May, 2013. 

COUNSEL FOR DEPARTMENT: 
Casie Barnette, Esq. 
Florida Bar No. 100159 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(P) 850-245-4444, extension 8102 
(F) 850-245-4662 

John H. Arrnstrong,MD, cS 

(E) casie_barnette@doh.sthte.fl.us 

6 

State Surgeoi 
Secretary 

Prosecution ServicS 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flohda through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & cornrnunity efforts. 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

-Viston: To be the Healthiest State in the 

AFFIDAViT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

BEVERLY L. JACKSON, R.PT 
Respondent - 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an Investigator/Inspector by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALThL State of Florida. 

2) That on (date)06/05/13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve 

______ 

Administrative 
Comptaint and related papers; X Order compelling examination(s); Subpoena(s); 

_________Final 

order; 

__________ 

Notice to cease and desist; 

_____________ 

ESO/ERO and relafed papers. 

3) Check answer below: 

X Affiant made personal service on Respondent, or on come porcon at Respondent's usual place of abode over 
the age of 15 residing there, on (date) 06/05/13 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers 

Litenses; and 

________________________ 

Affiant 

etc.); any others: 

_____________________ 

State Of Florida 

County Of Duval 

Before me, personally appeared Ryan F. Heal whose identity is known to me by Personal Knowledge (type of 
identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Sworn to or affirmed by Affiant 

___________ _______________ 

5th dayof June 

Notary Public-State of Fl&id ! 1 AM J. 
Type or Name 

ust2B 2013 

INVFORM321 
- 

- EXrnBIT 

HEAL H 

DOH 

Petitioner 

vs Case N&RPT 2013-07018 

, 
My Commission Expires 



Final Order No. 

FILED 2 32013 
STATEOF FLORIDA ,flkiIIh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

InRe: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary of 

Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the registration of Beverly 

Lynn Jackson ("Ms. Jackson"), to practice as a pharmacy technician in the 

State of Florida. Ms. Jackson holds registration number RPT 38762. Her 

address of record is 115 Lawrence: Boulevard, Keystone Heights, Florida 

32656. The following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law support the 

emergency suspension of Ms. Jackson's registration to practice as a 

pharmacy techniqian in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health "Department') is the state agency 

charged with regulating registered pharmacy technicians pursuant to 

Chapters 20, 456 and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.073(8), 

Florida Statutes (2012), authorizes the State Surgeon General to summarily 

suspend Ms. Jackson's registration to practice as a pharmacy technician in 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

the State of Florida, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

2. At all times material to this order, Ms. Jackson was a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida, pursuant to Chapter 465, florida 

was employed 

lgreens") located at 115 N. Lawrence Boulevard, Keystone Heights, 

Florida 32656. 

3. Between 2012 and 2013, Ms. Jackson diverted 30 to 40 units. of 

controlled substances from Walgreens, including oxycodone pills. 

4. Oxycodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (201.2), oxycodone is a Schedule I 
controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United 

States. Abuse of oxycodone may lead to severe psychological or physical 

dependence. 

5. On or about April 18, 2013, H.G., the Waigreens Loss Prevention 

Manager, contacted Clay County Sheriff's Office and reported Ms. Jackson's 

theft of oxycodone pills from Walgreens. 

2 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

6. H.G. reported to Officer:B.S. that on or about April 9, 2013, l-LG. 

reviewed Waigreens video surveillance records showing Ms. Jackson counting 

out dosage units of oxycodone 5mg and then placing her left hand into her 

pocket. 

7. H.G. stated to Officer B.S. that ftG. obtained additional video. 

surveillance on April 15, 2013, showing Ms. Jackson pocketing two pills of 

oxycodone 5mg. H.G. further reported that video surveillance on April 16, 

2013, showed Ms. Jackson pocketing two pills of oxycodone 10mg. 

8. On or about April 24, 2013, Officer B.S. interviewed Ms. Jackson 

at Waigreens. Ms. Jackson admitted to Officer B.S. that she stole 30 to 40 

units of oxycodone 5mg, 10mg, 20mg, and 30mg from Waigreens during the 

past year of her employment Ms. Jackson signed a sworn statement 

regarding her involvement in the thefts. 

9. Ms. Jackson further stated to Officer B.S. that she stole. 

oxycodone pills by counting out extra pills when she filled prescriptions for 

Waigreens customers and placing the extra pills in her pocket. 

10. Ms. Jackson stated to Officer B.S. that she has been addicted to 

oxycodone for the past year .and that she diverted oxycodone tablets from 

Waigreens for her personal use. 

3 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number. 2013-07018 

11. On or about April 24, 2013, Officer B.S. arrested Ms. Jackson and 

charged her with grand theft of a controlled substance. 

12. On or about May 9, 2013, the Department issued an Order to 

Compel Examination ("Order") against Ms. Jackson requiring that she submit 

to a mental and physical examination at the University of Florida, Florida 

Recovery Center located in Gainesville, Florida. 

13. On or about June 24, 2013, Dr. S.T. evaluated Ms. Jackson 

pursuant to the Order. During Dr. S.T.'s evaluation, Ms. Jackson submitted 

to urine, hair, and blood drug screens. The urine drug screen returned 

positive for cocaine and oxycodone/oxymorphone. 

14. According to Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), cocaine 

is a Schedule I controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and 

has a currently accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in 

the United States. Abuse of cocaine may lead to severe psychological or 

physical dependence. 

15. Oxymorphone is prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 

893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), oxymorphone is a Schedule II controlled 

substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently accepted 

4 



In Re: EniergencySuspension of the Registration of 
Reverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

• but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse 

of oxymorphone may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. 

16. During Dr. S.T.'s evaluation, Ms. Jackson admitted to abusing 

cocaine, benzodiazepines, opiates, and cannabis. Ms. Jackson stated that 

stated 

that she used crack cocaine' three days prior to Dr. S.T's evaluation. Dr. S.T. 

diagnosed Ms. Jackson with active opiold and cocaine dependence, cannabis 

dependence in partial remission, and benzodiazepine abuse. 

17. Benzodiazepines are a class of drugs that cause sedation and can 

be habit forming. Most benzodiazepines are Schedule IV controlled 

substances according to Section 893.03, Florida Statutes (2012) and are 
- 

- 

typically prescribed to treat anxiety or insomnia. 

18. Opiate, or opioid, drugs have similar actions as the drug opium 

and are typically prescribed to treat pain. While oploid drugs are synthetically 

manufactured and opiate drugs are naturally occurring, the terms "opiold" 

and "opiate" are often used interchangeably. Oploid drugs are addictive and 

subject to abuse. 

1 Crack cocaine is a form of cocaine that has. been processed to make rock 
crystal and is ingested by smoking. 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number; 2013-07018 

19. According to Section 893.03(1), Florida Statutes (2012), cannabis 

is a Schedule I controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and 

has no currently accepted medical use in treatment in Florida. Its use under 

medical supervision does not meet accepted safety standards. 

-20. As a result of his evaluation, Dr. ST. determined that Ms. Jackson 

was unable to practice as a registered pharmacy technician with reasonable 

skill and safety due to her addiction to opioids and cocaine. Further, Dr. S.T. 

opined that Ms. Jackson requires monitoring and inpatient treatment for 

cocaine and oploid dependence before returning to practice as a registered 

pharmacy technician. As of .the date of this order, Ms. Jackson has not 

entered into monitoring or treatment. 

21. In the course of their practice, registered pharmacy technicians 

have access to medications,. including controlled substances, which have a 

high likelihood for abuse and harm. Registered pharmacy technicians must 

dispense such drugs in a manner that is safe and effective for the patient. 

Even medications that generally are not considered dangerous may kill or 

severely harm a patient if that patient is allergic to an ingredient or is taking 

another medication that may interact adversely with the prescribed 

medication. 

6 





In Re: Emergency Suspension of the istration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

2. Section 465.016(1)(rn), Florida Statutes (2012), allows the Board 

of Pharmacy to impose discipline against a licensee, including suspension, for 

being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason 

of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or 

as a result of any mental or physical condition; - 

3. Ms. Jackson violated Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes 

(20 12), by being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety 

to patients due to her drug addiction and abuse of controlled substances 

including, but not limited to, cocaine, opiates, benzodiazepines, and cannabis. 

4. Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012), authorizes the State 

Surgeon General to summarily suspend a pharmacy technician's registration 

upon a finding that the registered pharmacy technician presents an 

immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety or welfare. 

5. Ms. Jackson's continued practice as a registered pharmacy 

technician constitutes an immediate, serious danger to the health, safety or 

welfare of the citizens of the State of Florida, and this summary procedure is 

fair under the circumstances to adequately protect the public. 

S 

I 



• In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The registration of Ms. Jackson to practice as a pharmacy 

technician, registration number RPT 38762, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal discipline of the registrationS of 

Jackson to practice asa pharmacy technician will be promptly instituted and 

acted upon in compliance with Sections 120.569 and 120.60(6), Florida 

StatUtes (2012). H 

DONE and ORDERED this of — 

9 

94 2013.. 

Surgeon General a 
Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 
Casie Barnette 
Assistant General Counsel I Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar Number 100159 
(P) 850/245-4444, ext 8102 
(F) 850/245-4662 
(E) caslebarnette@doh.state.fl.us 



in : Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sections 120.60(6), and 120.68, Florida Statutes, the 

Department's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and procedural 

fairness shall be judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by. 

the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. Such proceedings are commenced 

by filing a Petition for Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate 

Procedure 9.100, and accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by law with the 

District Court of Appeal, and providing a copy of that Petition to the 

Department of Health within thirty (30) days of the date this Order is filed. 



I 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

ns
el

 
P

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

U
ni

t 
40

52
 B

al
d 

C
yp

re
ss

 W
ay

, 
B

in
 C

-6
5 

T
al

la
ha

ss
ee

, F
lo

rid
a 

32
39

9-
17

01
 

P
H

O
N

E
: 

05
0/

24
5-

44
44

 

- 

$ JU
L2

4 
20

13
 

Z
IR

G
O

D
E

 3
23

0 
I II 

02
 

IA
 

00
04

31
19

78
 

M
A

IL
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 

?D
]d

 
15

?O
 

D
O

D
D

 
00

80
 

32
18

 

U
s 

It
vL

 

N
) U
 

C
 

"a
 : 



Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 
(Endorsement 

Restricled Delivery Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

Total Postage & Fees 

$ 

Posonark 

- 

z 3 — o—i o I 

• 

$ 

S PostaIServIceTM 
CERTIFLED MAILrM RECEIPT 
(Domestic Only i*o Insurance Véverage Vmvnied) 

fordehvery information Stwww tiaps coma 

USE I 

rR j 
m 

C 
C 
C 
C = = 
C 
C 
N 
U) 

r1 
r1 
C 
N 



Rick Scott Mission: 
- Governor To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, & community efforts. John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OR DILIGENT SEARCH 

DOH 

Petitioner 

vs Case No. RPT2O13-07018 
BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON• 
Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant; who first being duly sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Aifrant is an Investigator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Flodda, 

_______________ 

Affiant made a diligent effort to locate Respondent, to serve 

______ 

— Order compellingexamination(s); Subpoena(s); 

________ __________ 

X ESO/ERO and related papers, 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

X Affiant made personal service on Respondent, or on some person at Respondent's usual place of abode over 
the age of 15 residing there, on (date) 07/24/13 

________Affiant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at: (a) all addresses for Respondent shown 
in the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records on the 
computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to frequent; 
(d) Division of Drivers 

(electric, cable, etcj; any others: 

_____________________ 

State Of Florida 
County Of Duval 

Before me, personally appeared Ryan F. Heal whose identity is known to me by•_____________ 
identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

Commission #00 915762 i Expirsa August 28, 2013 
aenS TFinF ,, F,Ln 

HEALTH 

2) That on (date)07/24/13 
Complaint and related papers; 
Notice to cease and desist; 

______ 

Administrative 
Final order; 

___________ 

Personal Knowledqe 

affirmed by Affiant 

Notary Public-State of Florida 

25th day of July 

(type of 

2013 

3 

Type or Print Name 

NV FORM 321 

My Commission Expires 

EXHIBIT # c 3 PAGE 



Christopher, Tamia L 

From: Christopher, Tamia L 

Sent: Tuesday, July 23, 2013 2:57 PM 
To: zzzz Feedback, MQA_PSU_Operations 
Cc: Pope, Berita 
Subject: FAW# 13288920 

Attachments: FAR Suspension Memorandum_Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT.doc 

Please find attached for your review and records is the FAW memorandum regarding: 
DOH Case: Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T. 
DOH Case No. : 2013-07018 

FAR Suspension 
lemorandum eve 

Thank you. 

Tamia L. Christopher, Regulatory Specialist I 

Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department Of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4640 ext. 8200 

How am I communicating? Please contact my . 
Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from 
state officials regarding state business are public records available to the public and media upon 
request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial administrative 
proceedings to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this e-mail is an attorney-client 
communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the provisions of 
Chapter 119, Florida Statute. 

Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statute (2010). 

DOH Mission: To protect, promote &. improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county, & community efforts. 
Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 
Values: (ICARE) 
Innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
Collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
Accountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
Responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 
Excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 
There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to 

- . 



Rick Scott Minion 
Governor To protect, promote & irnproQe the health 

______________ 

of al peo* in Florida through ntegrated 
John H. Armstrong, , FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Florida Administrative Registry 

FROM: Tamia Christopher, Regulatory Specialist I 

RE: Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T., Registration # RPT 38762 (FAW# 13288920) 

CASE NO: 2013-07018 

DATE: July 23, 2013 

Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension Order for notice in the next issue of the Florida 
Administrative Register. 

On July 23, 2013,. the Stat& Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Beverly 
Lynn Jackson, R.P.T,, Registration RPT 38762. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's 
findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6) 
Florida Statutes (2011). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in 
that there was no other method available to adejuately protect the public. 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
— 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399 
. FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentof Health 

PHONE: 850-245-4444 • FAX 850-245-4662 YOUTUBE: fidoh 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John N. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Sumeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

PSU REQUEST FORM 
FROM: Tamia Christopher For Casie 

Barnette, Esq. 

TO: Charles C. Coats, I, Investigative 
Supervisor 

ISU Jacksonville 

Date: 7/23/I 3 TO: CSU 

Phone #: 850/245/4444 Ext. 8200 CC: 

Case Number 2 

Subject: Beverly L 

013-070 18 Board: Pharmacy 

ynn Jackson HL Code: HLLIOSB Status: 90 
Requested Completion Date: A.S.A.P. 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

. 

Process Service* (Activity Code 160) 
c— 

) 
C) 

2 

. 
Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code ISO) 

r 
£7 

I—. 

Details: For Hand Service of ESO 
Last Known Address: 115 Lawrence Blvd., Keystone Heights, Florida 32656 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Beverly Lynn Jackson (B) (352) 473-4621 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: . Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl NoM; If Yes, When? 

Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an office different from where this service request 
is being sent? YES fln No fl NOTE: All pro'cess service need to be sent to appropriate 
field 

9F YES. please send a àf the original ive without . 
Florida Department of Health 
Division of Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399- 

ldasHeaith.com 
TWITTEftHeaRhyFLA 

FACEBO OK : F L De p a rime ntotlea Ith 

- 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 
Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed 

(Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 



ma 
Taflahasse Alachu Jacksonvill Tamp Orland ft to. 

Myers Lauderda'e Pensacola 

Consume 

rServices ULA 

-' 
rn 

C rr; 

— ) Or 



a 
7 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
• 

OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Jacksonville Date ofCornplaint: 05/02/13 Case Number: RPT 2013-07013 
Subject: BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, RPT 

115 Lawrence Blvd. 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 
(B) (352) 473-4621 

Source: DOll / JACKSONVILLE ISU 
. 

. 

. 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
RPT 38762 Registered Pharmacy 07/25/13 

Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 07/23/13—07/25/13 Type of Report: SUPPLEMENTAL 
Alleged Violation: SEE F1NAL REPORT 

Synopsis: 

This supplemental report is predicated upon the receipt of a request from PSU for this office to hand serve the 
attached Emergency Suspension Order and attachments to JACKSON, (Exhibit S-i). 

S-I. Supplemental request and attachments 
S-2. Affidavitof Service C 

C 
0) 

Related Complaint: None 

Investigator/Date: 

Ryan F. Heal 
MQA Investigator (J -81) 
Distribution: HQ/ISU 

Approved 

Race iv a ci 

26 
Manager (JI-15) 

Page 1 

INV Form 300 

On 07/24/13, this Investigator presented to 's mother's place of residence at 7473 Caribbean 
Circle, Keystone Heights, FL 32656, and hand served the Order to JACKSON's father. The father stated. he 
would have JACKSON contact this Investigator via telephone to confirm receipt. On the same date, this 
Investigator did receiye a voicemail from JACKSON stating she had received the ESO, (Exhibit S-2). : . 

. 

HO 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH 

Rick Scott >'}J Governor 

John H. , MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision; To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

PSU REQUEST FORM 
FROM: Tamia Christopher For Casie 

Barnette, Esq. 

. 

TO: Charles C. Coats, Ill, Investigative 
Supervisor 
ISU Jacksonville 

Date: ! 3 TO: CSU 

Phone #: 850/245/4444 Ext. 8200 CC: 

Case Number: 2013-07018 Board: Pharmacy 
Subject Beverly Lynn Jackson HL Code: HLLIO5B Status: 90 
Requested Completion Date: A.S.A.P. 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Z Process Service* (Activity Code 160) ' 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I .0) 
Details: For Hand Service of ESO 
Last Known Address: 115 Lawrence Blvd., Keystone Heights, Florida 32656 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Beverly Lynn Jackson.(B) (352) 473-4621 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl N0Z; If Yes, When? 
Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request 
is being sent? No fl NOTE All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate 

office. 
**IF YES please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without attachments 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHeaitfl.com 
Division of Prosecution Services Unit , ITTER:HeaIthyFLA 

1 PHONE: FAX 550-245-4662 
. IT YOUTUBE: fldoh 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 
Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed 

(Activity Code 162) 

Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 



Emau 
Tailahasse Alachu acksonvill Tamp Orland Ft. Ft. to: LddI Miami 

Pensacola 

Consume 

L&ykes ULA 



Rick Scott 
Mission: 

Governor To protect, promote & improve the . . 

of alt people in Florida through integrated 
state county &community efforts, 

. John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 114 . Surgeon l & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Flealthiest State in the Nation 

July 23, 2013 

7011 1579 9009 0060 3216 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T. 

115 Lawrence Blvd 
Keystone Hieghts, FL 32656 

RE: Department of Health vs. Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T. 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

Dear Beverly Lynn Jackson: 

Enclosed please find an Order of Emergency Suspension of Registration filed July 23, 2013, 
against your registration to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 
You should immediately cease the practice as a registered pharmacy technician according to the 
enclosed Order of Emergency Suspension of Registration, 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Casie Barnette, Assistant General 
Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

Tamia Christopher 
Regulatory Specialist I 
Prosecution Services Unit 

/tc 
Enclosure 

Florida Department of Health . 

. .com 
Office of the General Counsel• Prosecution Services Unit 

TWITTER:RealthyFL.A 4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin 0-65. Tallahessee, FL 3239g-1 701 oeparcrnentofi-leaJm 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 

YQUTUBE: Ildph —-- — 
— 



Final Order No. 1aMQA 
FILEDDATE.JUL 2 3 

STATE OF FLORIDA Department of IICaIIh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
my Agency Clerk 

In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF REGISTRATION 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS, State Surgeon General and Secretary of 

Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the registration of ly 
Lynn Jackson ("Ms. Jackson'), to practice as a pharmacy technician in the 

State of Florida. Ms. Jackson holds registratibn number RPT 38762. Her 

address of record is 115 Lawrence Boulevard, Keystone Heights, Florida 

32656. The following Findings of Fact and conclusions of Law support the 

emergency suspension of Ms. Jackson's registration to practice as a 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health ("Department') is the state agency 

charged with regulating registered pharmacy technicians pursuant to 

Chapters 20, 456 and 465, Florida Statutes (2012). Section 456.073(8), 

Florida (2012), authorizes the State Surgeon General to summarily 

suspend Ms. Jackson's registration to practice as a pharmacy technician in 



in Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
CaseNunther: 2013-07018 

the State of Florida, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012). 

2. At alt times material to this order, Ms. Jackson was a registered 

pharmacy technician in the State of Florida, pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida 

Statutes (2012), and she was employed by igreens Pharmacy 

located at 115 N. Lawrence Boulevard, Keystone Heights, 

Florida 32656. 

3. Between 2012 and 2013, Ms.. Jackson diverted 30 to 40 units of 

controlled substances from lgreens, including oxycodone pills. 

4. Oxycodone is commonly prescribed to treat pain.. According to 

Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), oxycodone is a Schedule i 
controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but sever&y restricted medical use in treatment in the United 

States. Abuse of oxycodone may lead to severe psychological or physic& 

dependence. 

5. On or about April 18, 2013, H.G., the lgreens Loss Prevention 

Manager, contacted Clay County Sheriff's Office and reported Ms. Jackson's 

theft of oxycodone pills from Waigreens. 

2 



In Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Regisu-ationNo.: RPT 3g762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

6. H.G. reported to Officer 3.5. that on or about April 9, 2013, ftG. 

reviewed Waigreens video surveillance records showing Ms. )ackson counting 

out dosage units of oxycodone 5mg and then placing her left hand into her 

pocket. 

7. ftG. stated to Officer B.S. that H.G. obtained additional video 

surveillance on April 15, 2013, showing Ms. Jackson pocketing two pills of 

oxycodone 5mg. H.G. further reported that video surveiflance on April 16, 

2013, showed Ms. Jackson pocketing two pills of oxycodone 10mg. 

8. On or about April24, 2013, Officer 3.5. interviewed Ms. Jackson 

at Waigreens. Ms. Jackson admitted to Officer 3.5. that she stole 30 to 40 

units of oxycodone 5mg, 10mg, 20mg, and 30mg from lgreens during the 

past year of her employment Ms. Jackson signed a sworn statement 

regarding her involvement in the thefts. 

9. Ms. Jackson further stated to Officer 3.5. that she stole 

oxycodone Us by counting out extra pills when she filled prescriptions for 

Waigreens customers and placing the extra pills in her pocket. 

10. Ms. Jackson stated to Officer -S. that she has been addicted to 

oxycodone for the past year and that she diverted oxycodone tablets frohi 

Walgreens for her personal use, 

3 



hiRe: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lymi Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 

• Case Number: 

11. On or about April 24, 2013, Officer B.S. arrested Ms. Jackson and 

charged her with grand theft of a controlled substance. 

12. On or about May 9, 2013, the Department issued an Order to 

Compel Examination against Ms. Jackson requiring that she submit 

to a mental and physical examination at the University of Florida, Florida 

Recovery Center located in Gainesville, Florida. 

13. On or about June 24, 2013, Dr. S.T. evaluated Ms. Jackson 

pursuant to the Order. During Dr. S.T.'s evaluation, Ms. Jackson submitted 

to urine, hair, and blood drug screens. The urine drug screen returned 

positive for cocaine and oxycodone/oxymorphone. 

14. According to Section 893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), cocaine 

is a Schedule II controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and 

has a currently accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in 

the United States. Abuse of cocaine may lead to severe psychological• or 

physical dependence. 

15. Oxymorphone is prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 

893.03(2), Florida Statutes (2012), oxymorphone is a Schedule II controlled 

substance that has a high potential for abuse and has a currently accepted 

4 



in Re: Emergency Suspension ofthe•Registration of 
Beveriy Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse 

of oxymorphone may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. 

16. During Dr. S.T.'s evaluation, Ms. Jackson admitted to abusing 

cocaine, benzodiazepines, opiates, and cannabis. Ms. Jackson stated that 

and. opiates. were.her. drugs of choice 

that she used crack 1 three days prior to Dr. 's evaluation. Dr. S:T. 

diagnosed Ms. Jackson with active opioid and cocaine dependence, cannabis 

dependence in partial remission, and benzodiazepine abuse. 

17. Benzodazepines are a class of drugs that cause sedation and can 

be habit forming. Most benzodiazepines are Schedule IV controfled 

substances according to Section 893.03, Florida Statutes (2012) and are 

typically prescribed to treat anxiety or insomnia. 

18. Opiate, or opioid, drugs have similar actions as the drug opium 

and are typically prescribed to treat pain. While oploid drugs are synthetically 

manufactured and opiate drugs are ly occurring, the terms "opiold" 

and "opiate" are often used interchangeably. Opioid drugs are addictive and 

subject to abuse. 

1 Crack cocaine is a form of cocaine that has been processed to make rock 
crystal and is ingested by smoking. 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

19. According to Section 893.03(1), Florida Statutes (2012), cannabis 

is a Schedule I controlled substance that has a high potential for abuse and 

has no currently accepted medical use in treatment in Florida. Its use under 

medical supervision does not meet accepted safety standards. 

20. a result of his evaluation, Dr. - determined that Ms. 

was unable to practice as a registered pharmacy technician with reasonable 

skill and safety due to her addiction to oploids and cocaine. Further, Dr. S.T. 

opined that Ms. Jackson requires monitoring and inpat lent treatment for 

cocaine and oploid dependence before returning to practice as a registered 

pharmacy technician. As of the date of this order, Ms. Jackson has not 

entered into monitoring or treatment. 

21. In the course of their practice, registered pharmacy technicians 

have access to medications, including controlled substances, which have a 

high likelihood for abuse and harm. Registered technidans must 

dispense such drugs in a manner that is safe and effective for the patient. 

Even medications that generally are not considered dangerous may kill or 

severely harm a patient if that patient is allergic to an ingredient or taking 

another medication that may interact adversely with the prescribed 

medication. 

6 



• In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of ly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 

• 07018 
22. Because Ms. Jackson is impaired by the use of illegal or controlled 

substances and, consequently, may not be capable of filling prescriptions for 

others in a manner that is correct and safe, Ms. 's continued practice 

as a registered pharmacy technidan presents an immediate serious danger to 

the health, welfare, and safety of the public. Furthermore, Ms. Jackson 

admitted to stealing controlled substances from her employer. Because Ms. 

Jackson's abuse of controlled substances, including but not limited to cocaine, 

opiates, benzodiazepines and cannabis, adversely affects her judgment and 

ability to practice as a registered pharmacy technician in any manner, it is 

impossible to craft a restriction that would adequately protect the public from 

the danger posed by Ms. Jackson's pracUce of pharmacy. Therefore, 

complete suspension of her registration is necessary. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General 

concludes as follows: 

1. The State Surgeon General has jurisdiction over this matter 

pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 456.073(8), Florida Statutes (2012), and 

Chapter 465, lorida Statutes (2012), as set forth above. 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the of 
Beverly n , RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

2. Section 465016(1)(m), FlOrida Statutes (2012), lows the Board 

of Pharmacy to impose discipline against a.licensee, including suspension, for 

being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason 

of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or 

as a result of any mental or physical condition. 

3. Ms. Jackson violated Section 465.016(1)(m), Florida Statutes 

(20 12), by being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety 

to patients due to her drug addiction and abuse of controlled substances 

including, but not limited to, cocaine, opiates, benzodiazepines, and cannabis. 

4. Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2012), authorizes the State 

Surgeon Genera! to summarily suspend a pharmacy technician's registration 

upon a finding that the registered pharmacy technician presents an 

immediate, serious danger to the pubhc health, safety or welfare. 

5. Ms. Jackson's continued practice as a registered pharmacy 

technician constitutes an immediate, serious danger to the health, safety, or 

welfare of the citizens of the State of Florida, and this summary procedure is 

fair under the circumstances to adequately protect the public. 

8 



In : Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.PT 

• Registration No.: RPT 38762 
• Case Number: 2013-07018 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 120.60(6), Florida Statutes 

(2012), it is ORDERED THAT: 

1. The registration of Ms. Jackson to practice as a pharmacy 

technician, registration number RPT 38762, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal discipline of the of Ms. 

Jackson to practice as a pharmacy technician wilt be promptly instituted and 

acted upon in compliance with Sections 120.569 and 120.60(6), Florida 

Statutes (2012). 

DONE and ORDERED this day of 

________________, 

2013. L 
PREPARED BY: 

Casie Barnette 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Taltahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar Number 100159 
(P) 850/245-4444, ext 8102 
(F) 850/245-4662 
(E) casie_barnette@doh.state.ft.us 

9 

Sta Surgeon General ' 
Secretary of Health 



In Re: Emergency Suspension of the Registration of 
Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT 
Registration No.: RPT 38762 
Case Number; 2013-07018 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Sections 120.60(6), and 120.68, Florida Statutes, the 

Department's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and procedural 

fairness shall be judicially reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by 

the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. Such proceedings are commenced 

by fifing a Petition for Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate 

Procedure , accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by law with the 

District Court of Appeal, and providing a copy of that Petition to the 

Department of Health within thirty (30) days of the date thisOrder is filed. 

10 



** Transmit Conf.. Report ** 
P.1 Jul 232013 6pm 

Fax/Phone Number Mode 

Normal 

Start 

23:Q2:46pm 

Time 

0'29" 

Page Result Note 

1 * 0 K 

.tt : arct.etheheolth 

________ 

of Flmfl g a 

& n General & Bwelary 

VIowrn To ae the iest raaIa in the Na5rai 

July 23; 2013 

The le Robert S. Cohen 

Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee 
lahassee, t 32301 

RE: Department of Health vs, Beverly Lynn Jackson, R.P.T. 

Case Number: 2013-07018 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the registration of Beverly. Lynn 3ackson to practice as a registered pharmacy 
technician in the State of Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been issued in the above 
case. Therefore, this is not a request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of the 
possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department shall keep you 
advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact Casie Bamette, 
Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

Tamia Christopher 
Regulatory Specialist I 
Prosecution SeMces Unit 

/tc 

orida Departnn.nt of Health . lth.caan 
tAme General Courud • Frouiottn Seraloonuif 

• 4W2 Gyprnoa Way Gin . Tdetraaee, uIdh - 
• • • • - 



Mission: 
To protect, promote S improve the health 

of all people in Florida through inlegrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 

Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

July 23, 2013 

RE: Department of Health vs. Beverly Lynn R.P.T. 
Case Number: 2013-07018 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the registration of Beverly Lynn Jackson to practice as a registered pharmacy 
technician in the State of Florida. An Administrative Complaint has not been issued in the above 
case. Therefore, this is not a request for a fprmal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of the 
possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department shall keep you 
advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact Casie Barnette, 
Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

/tc 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecubon Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65• Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 

.EAX850(245-4662 - 

ldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

YOUTUBE:fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nalion 

Rick Scott 
Govemor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General & Secretary 

Tamia Christopher 
Regulatory Specialist I 
Prosecution Services Unit 



Christopher, Tamia L 

From: Christopher, Tamia L 
Sent: Tuesday, July 23, 2013 2:05 PM 
To: DL MQA nv Serv Priority Mail Area4 (JI) Jacksonville 
Cc: Pope, Berita 
Subject: Request For Hand Serve ESO/Jackson 2013-07018 

Attachments: Supplemental Request Form_Beverly Lynn Jackson.doc; DOH 13-1 331 ESO 201307018-1 
_Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT.pdf 

Correction: 

Please hand serve the attached ESO on the Respondent. Thank you. 

Supplemental DOR 13-1331 
equest 201307018-1B 

Tamia L. Christopher, Regulatory Specialist I 

Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-55 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4640 ext. 8200 

How am I communicating? Please contact my . 
Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from 
state officials regarding state business are public records available to the public and media upon 
request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial administrative 
proceedings to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this e-mail is an attorney-client 
communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the provisions of 
Chapter 119, Florida Statute. 

See Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statute (2010). 

DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county, & community efforts. 
Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 
Values: (ICARE) 
Innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
Collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
Accountability: We perform with integrity & respeôt. 
Responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 
Excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 
There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to 
learn more. 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through integrated 
state, county & Ity efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

PSU REQUEST FORM 
FROM: Tamia Christopher For Casie TO: Charles C. coats, Ill, Investigative 
Barnette, Escj. Supervisor 

ISU Jacksonville 

Date: 7123113 TO: CSU 

Phone #: 850/245/4444 Ext. 8200 CC: 

Case Number -07018 
Subject: Beverly Lynn Jackson 

Requested Completion Date: A.S.A.P. 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 

Process Service*(Activity Code 160) 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) 

fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code ISO) 

Details: For Hand Service of ESO 

Last Known Address: 115 Lawrence Blvd., Keystone Heights, Florida 32656 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Beverly Lynn Jackson (3) (352) 473-4621 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES fl N0Z; If Yes, When? 

Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request 
is being sent? YES fl NOTE: All process service requests need to-be sent toappropriate 
field office. 

IF YES. please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
Florida Department of Health 
Division of Prosecution Services Unft — 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399- 
PHONE: FAX 850-245.4662 

www.FloridasHeaith.com 

FACE K: lealth 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in Naflon 

Board: Pharmacy 

HL Code: HLLIO5B Status: 90 

(ISUICSU) RESPONSE: 
Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed 

(Activity Code I 62) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) 

fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 
RE: DOH v. Beverly 1. Jackson, RPT 

DOH Case Number 2013-07018 

MEMBERS: Cynthia R. Griffin, PharmD & Jeffrey 3. Mesaros, R.Ph 

DATE OF PCP: August 08, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-2 (CB) 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 
the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 
information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.0 16(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

Other 

Pr ba le Panel bate 
Board of Pharmacy 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Jacksonville Date of Comp'aint: 05/02/13 Case Number: RPT 2013-07018 
Subject: BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, RPT 

115 Lawrence Blvd. 
Keystone Heights, FL 32656 
(B) (352) 473-4621 

Source: l / JACKSONVILLE ISU 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 

RPT 38762 Registered Pharmacy 05/15/13 
Pharmacy 
Technician 

Period of Investigation: 05/03/13—05/15/13 Type ofkeport: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 465.016 "Disciplinary actions.— (1) The following acts... (d) Being unfit or incompetent to 
practice... 2 The misuse or abuse... 3 Any abnormal physical or mental condition... (c) Violating... (i) Compounding, 
dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance... (m) Being unable to practice pharmacy 
with reasonable skill and safety... (r) Violating..!' F.S. 456.072 "Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement.—(1) 
The following acts... (a) Making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent representations... (m) Making deceptive, untrue, 
or fraudulent representations... (z) Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety..." 

Synopsis: 
This investigation is predicated upon receipt of.a complaint submitted by the DOH / JACKSONVILLE ISU 
in regard to BEVERLY LYNN JACKSON, RPT alleging that on 04/24/13, Jackson was arrested for a felony. 
JACKSON was involved in diversion and may be impaired, (Exhibit # 1). 

JACKSON was notified of the investigation by letter dated 05/03/13 and was provided with a copy of the 
Department of Health's Uniform Case SUmmary and a copy of the originating documents submitted by the 
DOH, (Exhibit # 2). 

A check of DOH computer records revealed JACKSON is currently registered as a registered pharmacy 
technician. 

No patient(s) was/were identified, thus patient notification was not required. 

JACKSON is not known to be represented byan Attorney in this matter. 

On 05/03/13, Investigator TODD MCCORMICK, of this office, hand served the notification letter to 
JACKSON at her mother's mobile home , located at 4773 Caribbean Circle, Keystone Heights, FL 32656. 
Voicemail messages were left for JACKSON at her mobile number, (904) 263-7667, on 05/08/13, 05/13/13 
and 05/15/13. As of this writing, no further contact has been made with JACKSON. 

Related : None 

Investigator/Date: 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 

Ryan F. Heal 
Medical Malpractice Ihvestii 

Approved By/Date: 

INV Form 300 7/02 

C 

', 

00 M CA 
TaHaftassee HO 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NuMBER: RPT 201 3-07018 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

Ill. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records 3 : 
WA. SIMMONS, (Detective / Witness) 4 

HALEY HAMPTON GLISSON, (Witness) 4 

Investigator's Notes 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

,CaseSummary&Attachments 5-16 

2. Notification Letter & Attachments 17-29 

3. Facsimile request to PRN 30-32 

4. Facsimile response from PRN 

* EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME 
• AND ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

* THESE RECORDS ARE SEALED PURSUM4T TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), 
FLORIDA STATUTES, AND COPIES ARE NOT MAINTAINED IN THE JACKSONVILLE 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES OFFICE. 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 2 



DOI1 INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: RPT 201 3-07018 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records 

Exhibij 1 is the Case Summary and attachments. The attachments include the following: 
• The Healthcare Practitioner Complaint Form. 
• Clay County Sheriffs Office Incident / Investigation Report, dated 04/24/13, essentially 

noting the following: 
o The incident took place at lgreen' s Pharmacy in Keystone Heights, FL. 
o The incident was reported to the detective, BA SIMMONS, by HALEY GLISSON, 

the loss prevention manager for Walgreens. 
o GLISSON stated that in the past several months, Oxycodone 5mg, 10mg, 15mg, 

20mg and 30mg pills have gone missing from the pharmacy. 
o GLISSON had placed video surveillance to see who was responsible for the pills 

being stolen, and also had the pharmacy managers doing counts of the Oxycodone on 
several occasions to which pharmacy employee could be responsible for the 
stolen pills. 

o GLISSON observed video of JACKSON counting prescriptions for customers and 
then place her left hand into her pocket with something on 04/19/13. 

o GLISSON observed video on 04/15/13 of two is of Oxycodone 5mg and on 
04/16/13 of two pills of Oxycodone 10mg being taken by JACKSON. 

o The detective contacted JACKSON at her home address on 04/24/13, and the 
subsequent interview was recorded. 

o JACKSON was read her Constitutional rights, said she understood, and agreed to 
speak about her involvement. 

o JACKSON stated she had been employed at the pharmacy for two years, and for the 
last year, she had stolen about 30-40 pills of Oxycodone 5mg, 10mg, 15mg, 20mg 
and 30mg. 

o When a prescription would come into the pharmacy for Oxycodone, she would count 
out an extra pill or two at a time, and then place them into her pocket. 

o JACKSON stated she used the pills for personal use and had an addiction for the last 
year from an accident. 

o JACKSON completed a swom statement arid was arrested. 
• Office of the Sheriff, Clay County, Florida, Adult Arrest Report, which essentially es the 

information noted above. It additionally notes JACKSON committed the unlawful act of 
Grand Theft of Controlled Substance. 

• Clay County Sheriffs Office Sworn Statement written and signed by JACKSON, which 
states: 

o She has been taking Oxycodone pills from lgreens for about a year. 
o It was a bad life decision, and she did it for personal use for her own pains. 
o She does not know how many pills she has taken, but estimates around 30-40 pills. 
o "I only took what I could, when I had the opportunity to do so." 

Exhibit 4 is the facsimile response from PRN, which notes, "Ms. JACKSON is not known to PRN." 

INV Form 300 7/02 Page 3 



I INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE h 2ER: RPT 2013-07018 

INTERVIEW OF E.A. SIMMONS 

Detective 
Clay County Sheriffs Office 
P0 Box 548 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
(B) (904) 264-6512 

On 05/09/13, this Investigator contacted SIMMONS at the number noted above. Simmons stated 
that he had no further information at this time, that everything he had was in the incident report. 
SIMMONS did read his copy of the written statement, so this Investigator could verifS' what was 
written as it is a poor quality copy. 

INTERVIEW OF HALEY HAMPTON GLISSON 

Loss Prevention Manager 
Waigreens 
922 Clay St. 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
(B) (904) 487-1832 

On 05/09/13, this Investigator interviewed GLISSON via telephone at the number noted above. 
During the interview, GLISSON essentially stated the following: 

• She does not have much to add to the investigation that is not in the police report. 
• They were having receiving issues at that store, the monthly CII counts were not correct. 
• One of the pharmacists starting noticing "he was short a pill here and there." 
• She started ordering reports, but they are not definitive, only showing trends. 
• She looked at video, and "got lucky." 
• The video is not very good, but it does show JACKSON putting something in her pocket 

while she was counting Oxycodone on a couple of occasions. 
• She interviewed JACKSON, who admitted she had been taking oxycodoen of varying 

• strengths since 2011. 
• She is doing an audit now to find exact discrepancies to report to the DEA. 
• JACKSON obviously does not know how much she has taken, because she admitted to 

taking more pills than the pharmacy is missing. 
• There are no other loss prevention related disciplinary issues with JACKSON, except she 

- did use sick leave in advance ofa day off instead of usingyacationleave. - 

GLISSON had nothing further to add to this investigation at that time. 

Investigator's Notes: 
On 05/03/13, Investigator TODD MCCORMICK, of this office, hand served the notification letter 
to JACKSON at her mother's mobile home , located at 4773 Caribbean Circle, Keystone Heights, 
FL 32656. 

Voicemail messages were left for JACKSON at her mobile number, (904) 263-7667, on 05/08/13, 
• 05/13/13 and p5/15/13. As of this no further contact has been made with JACKSON. 

• INV Form 300 7/02 Page 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


-—---- 
HELTH 

Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201305718 

PATRICK CARPENTER, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: PATRICK CARPENTER 
319 MURTLE AVENUE 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32086 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 

present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 

Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. i 
7%oard Executive 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.cOm 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance IITER:NeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin dO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentolHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fidob 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon Geneml & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201305718 

PATRICK CARPENTER, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: PAUL M. GARBARINI, ESQUIRE 
P.O. BOX 1551 
NORTHAMPTON, MA 01061 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Direefor 
OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITIER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofl-lealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, & efforts. / 

H EALH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Stats in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 

FROM: Jodi-Ann V. Johnson, Assistant General Counsel 

RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
suBJEcr: DOH v. Patrick Carpenter, PSI 

DON Case Number 2013-05817 

DATE: November 12, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 

final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Patrick Carpenter, PSI 

Subject's Address of 319 Murtle Avenue 
Record: St. Augustine, FL 32086 

Enforcement Address: 319 Murtle Avenue 
St. Augustine, FL 32086 

Subject's License No: 13115 Rank: PSI 

Licensure File No: 152 

Initial Licensure Date: 5/15/2000 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 465.06(1)(f)(r), F.S. 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: N/A 

Subject's Attorney' Paul M. Garbarini, Esquire 
P.O. Box 1551 
Northampton, MA 01061 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health & Human Services 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License 

Filed Voluntary Relinquishment 
Board Notification Letter 
Final Investigative Report 
Exhibit 1 - 3 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHealth.com 
of the Geneml Counsel • Proseajtion Unit TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepadmentofflealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row — Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850t245-4683 



Disciplinary Guidelines 

Section 456.016(1.)(f) 
m: one year suspension, two years probation, and $5,000 fine. 
Max: Revocation. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-05817 

PATRICK CARPENTER, PSI, 

Respondent. 

_____________________________________ 

I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER BASED UPON 
A VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF UCENSE 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the 1 As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. On or about July 1, 2013, a Complaint was filed with the 

Department of Health, alleging that Respondent violated provisions of 

Chapter 465 and/or Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of License. 



3. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

enter a Final Order accepting the terms of the Voluntary Relinquishment of 

License. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Jo i-Ann V. 
A istant Geriçral 

H Prosecutiôrrservices Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar #0073525 
(850) 245-4444 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facsimile 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
G 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this . day of 

, 2013, to: Paul M. Garbarini, Esquire, do 

Patrick Carpenter, PSI, .O. Box 1551; Northampton, MA 01061. 

Jodi-Ann V. 
sistant 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

• STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH — 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-05817 

PATRICK CARPENTER, PSI, 

Respondent. 
I 

VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, Patrick Carpenter, PSI, license number PSI 13115, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes his license to practice pharmacy in the State 

of Florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this 

cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be 

construed as action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a 

pharmacist intern in the State of Florida. 

Johnson\Pharrnacy\Settlement Agreements arid Vo'untary Relinquishment.s\Carpenter Patrick !, 1 
. 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing pharmacy in 

the state of Florida immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Retiriquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from the practice of 

pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

otherwise challenge or the validity of, this Voluntary 

Relinquishment and of the Final Order of the Board incorporatIng this 

Voluntary Relinquishment. 

5. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consIderation of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent 

agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other 

related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or 

any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution 

of these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

accepted by the Board. 

DATED this day of 

__________________, 

2013. 



Patrick 

Before me, personally appeared Ca.z-petckr 
whose identity is known to me by (type of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

STATE OF: 
COUNTY 

Sworn to and 
cc — 

My Commission 

subscribed before me this 7 day of 

LS - 
n 

MW — 
3t. 2015 

3 

Case No. 05817 

NOTARY 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flodda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

November22, 2013 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Suipeon General & Secretary 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Paul Ni. Garbarini, Esquire 

P.O. Box 1551 

Northampton, MA 01061 

Re: DOH vs. Patrick Carpenter, PSI 
DOH Case Number 2013-05817 

Dear Mr. Garbarini: 

We are in receipt of your client's executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. By 
Relinquishment of License form, your client agreed to the following: 

signing the Voluntary 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment will be considered disciplinary action against your clients 
license, pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• your client will never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist Intern in the State of Florida; and 
• voluntarily relinquishing your client's Florida Pharmacist Intern license may have an effect 

on Pharmacist Intern licenses that your client may hold in other states. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850- 
245-4444 extension 8113. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy will take up this request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting 
scheduled for February 5, 2014 at the Double Tree by Hilton, 60 South Ivanhoe Boulevard, 
Orlando, Florida 32804. Your client is not required to attend the meeting. 

JAVJ/pb 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0.65' Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 

PHONE: 85012454444 - FAX 850/245-4683 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
I1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACE600K:FLDepartmentokealth 
YOU11JBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

General 



INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 
CONSUMER SERVICES July 1, 2013 PSI 201 3-05817 

SUBJECT: 
PATRICK CARPENTER, PSI 
319 MURTLE AVENUE 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32086 
HOME PHONE: (518) 445-7588 

SOURCE: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
AMY FLYNN, INVESTIGATION ANALYST 
OFFICE.OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL 
15 NEW SUDBURY STREET, ROOM 2475 
BOSTON, MA 02203 
HOME PHONE: 617-565-2671 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PSI 13115 Pharmacist Intern 

Pharmacy September10, 2013 

Period of Investigation: Type of Report: 
July 1,2013 through August 30, 2013 FINAL 
Possible violation of S.S. 465.016(1)(fl(r), 456.072(1)(c)(k)(dd), .. Having been convicted or found guilty: Violate Statute I Rule of 
Board; Failure to perform legal obligation; DHHS Medicare Exclusion : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of documentation submitted from DHHS which alleged that CARPENTER has 
been excluded from participation in the Medicare, Medicaid, and all Federal health care programs as a result of the Subjects 
conviction in the Boston Munipal Court, State of Massachussetts. The action is effective as of March 29, 2013. On May 22, 2013, 
certified court documents were received from Boston Munipal Court which showed that on Janualry 6, 2010, CARPENTER was 
arrested by the Boston Police for Drugs - Trafficking in Cocaine. Subject did utter a false prescription and did receive 300 blue pills 
believed to be Oxycodone within 100 feet of a park. On May 6, 2010, CARPENTER accepted a plea of guilty to Trafficking Class B, 
Uttering False Instrument, Trafficking in Park Zone (Ex. #1, Case Summary, and attachments). 

CARPENTER was notified of this complaint by Regular and Certified USPS letters with two failed attempts. A Regular USPS letter, dated 
June 1, 2013, and a Certified USPS letter, dated July 1, 2013 to the address of record with the BOARD OF PHARMACY were aftempted 
fordelivery. Due to a diligent search, a Certified USPS letter was sent to a new address, located at 427 SHAWMUT AVENUE, 
APARTMENTS, BOSTON, MA 02115-3828, dated July 1,2013, which included a copy of the Case Summary, and documents from 

Munipal Court (Ex. #2). 

DOH computer information obtained September 10, 2013, indicates that CARPENTER is licensed to practice as a Pharmacist Intern in 
the State of Florida. CARPENTER's license is in CLEAR status. 

There is no patient involvement; therefore, patient notification was not required. 

CARPENTER appears to be represented by Attorney Paul M. Garbarini, R.Ph, PA., located at P.O. Box 1551, Northampton, MA, 
01061, (413) 727-8191. Attorney Garbarini has requested a copy of the . 
Counsel for CARPENTER has responded and states that CARPENTER has violated the laws of the profession of Pharmacy. Counsel 
states that CARPENTER applied for the license so that he could accrue pharmacy intern hours while living in Florida with his parents. 
CARPENTER assumed that the license had expired, and failed to request that Florida relinquish the license. Counsel for CARPENTER 
has requested that the license be voluntarily relinquished. 
Related Case: 

Distribution: Consumer Services Unit / Prosecution Services Unit 
Page 1 

i/Date: 

ers, 

lestigator/Date: 

OMC Manager 

'-0 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PS! 2013-05817 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 
1 

I. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits 3 
Interview/Statements: 
Interview/Statement of PATRICK CARPENTER, PSI 3 . EXHIBITS 

1) Case Summary, and supporting documents (Court records sealed) 4-22 

2) Subject Notification Letter(s), dated June 1, 2013 and July 1,2013 23-31 

3) Subject Response Letter(s), dated July 29, 2013, August 29, 2013 and August 30, 
2013.,. .32-49 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PSI 2013-05817 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

EXHIBIT 1 contains Court documentation from the Boston Munipal Court, State of 
Massachussetts which shows that on January 1, 2010, CARPENTER was arrested by the 
Boston Police for Drugs - Trafficking in Cocaine. Subject did utter a false prescription and did 
receive 300 blue pills believed to be Oxycodone within 100 feet of a park. On May 6, 2010, 
CARPENTER plead guilty to Trafficking Class B, Uttering False Instrument, Trafficking in Park 
Zone. On May 6, 2010, a Tender of Plea or Admission to Sufficient Facts Waiver of Rights was 
entered and CARPENTER was sentenced in Count A: Possession with Intent (Class D) - Guilty 
- One (1)day committed; Count B: One (1) day concurrent with Count A; Count C; Two (2) 
years committed — on and after Count one (1), and assessed a $1,000 fine (Ex. #11 Case 
Summary, and attachments). 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANDHUMAN SERVICES (DHHS) : 
On April 11, 2013, Investigator HAIRSTON received documentation from DHHS which alleged 
that CARPENTER has been excluded from participation in the Medicare, Medicaid, and all 
Federal health care programs as a result of the Subject's conviction in the Boston Munipal 
Court, State of Massachussetts. 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF PATRICK CARPENTER, PSI 

Address of Record (for Subject): 

319 MURTLE AVENUE 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32086 
HOME PHONE: (518) 445-7888 

Counsel for CARPENTER has responded on August 30, 2013, and states that CARPENTER has 
violated the laws of the profession of Pharmacy in Florida. Counsel states that CARPENTER 
applied for the license so that he could accrue pharmacy intern hours while living in Florida with his 
parents. CARPENTER assumed that the license had expired, and failed to request that Florida 
relinquish the license. Counsel for CARPENTER has requested that the license be voluntarily 
relinquished (Ex. 3). 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Floeda through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307373 

SAMUEL E WAHBA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SAMUEL EWAHBA 
4465 LAVENDER DRIVE 
PALM HARBOR, FL 34685 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 

present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Director 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444W FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the heath 
of all people in Flohda through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307373 

SAMUEL E WAHBA, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SAMUEL EWAHBA 
31201 Us HIGHWAY 19N, SUITE 3, 
PALM HARBOR, FL 34684 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 

present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive Dir ctor 
,f BOARD OF PHARMACY 
V Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentolHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect prornote & improve the health 

oIaH people in Florida through integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Jodi-Ann V. Johnson, Assistant General Counsel : Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2013-07373 

DATE: December 2, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 1.2, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 

Subject's Address of 4465 Lavender Drive 
Record: Palm Harbor, FL 34685 

Enforcement Address: 31201 US Highway 19N, Suite 3 

Palm Harbor, FL 34684 

Subject's License No: 27213 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 16250 

Initial Licensure Date: 11/22/1991 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Count I: Section 465.016(1)(f), F.S.(2012) 
Count II: Section 465.016(1)(r), F.S(2012), by 
violating Section 456.072(1)(ll), F.S(2012) 

Prior Discipline: 5010, DOH-06-1599-S; 4022, DOH-02-0619-S 

Probable Cause Panel: November 7, 2013 
Meshad and Weizer 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Consumer Services Unit 

Materials Submitted: Board Memorandum 
Filed Voluntary Relinquishment 
Administrative Complaint 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit 

TWITFER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDeparthientolHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
ESO packet 
PCP Memorandum 
Final Investigative Report 
Exhibits 1-2 

Disciplinary Guidelines 

Section 456.072(1)(ll) 
Mm: Revocation and a fine of $10,000, or in the case of application for licensure, denial of 
license. 

Section 465.016(1)(f) 
Mm: $3,000 fine and one year probation. 
Max: Revocation 



FiLED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK Ange(sanjers STATE OF FLORIDA DATE DEC 02 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
4 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO.: 2013-07373 

SAMUEL E. WAHBA, RPH, 

Respondent 

I 
VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHIVIENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent SAMUEL E. WAHBA, RPH, license No. PS 27213, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice Pharmacy in 

the State of Florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment 

is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this• cause. 

Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy 

(hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed 

as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. As with any disciplinary action, this 

relinquishment will be reported to the National Practitioner's Data Bank as 



public record and remain public record and that information is immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the s acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 

attorneys fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent agrees 

that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other related 

materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of 

its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of 

these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

accepted by the Board. 



DATED this 

_______ 

day of 

STATE OF b LCL 
COUNTYOF: 

_CID- 

E. WA H , RPH 

me, personally appeared E. 
is known to me — ,pe of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this ai day of 

My Commission Expires: 

Before 
whose identity 

MY Cautsat 
W 06, 2014 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMEP1T OF HEALTH, 

IONER, 
v. 

CASE NO. 2013-07373 
SAMUEL E. WAHBA, R.PhI., 

RESPONDENT. I 
kDMINISrrtAnvE COMPLflPIr 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 
undersigned counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board 
of Pharmacy against Respondent, Samuel E. Wahba, RPH, and in support 
thereof alleges: 

1. PetItioner is the state charged with regulating the 
practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 
456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 
licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued license 
number PS 27213, 



3. Respondents address of record is 4465 Lavender Drive, Palm 

Harbor, Florida 34685. 

. On or about May 2, 2013, an Information was filed the 

United States District Court, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in 

case number 8: 13-CR-232-T-30Ep3, charging Respondent with conspiracy 

In violation of TItle 18 United States Code § 371. Respondent was arrested 

on May 23, 2013. 

5. On or about June 11, 2013, in the United States District Court, 

Middle District of florida, Tampa Division, in case number 8: 13-CR-232-T- 

3OEA), Respondent pled guilty to one count of conspiracy to commit 

healthcare fraud, in violation of Title 18 United States Code § 371, and was 

adjudged guilty. 

COUNT ONE 

6. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 

thitugh five (5) as If fully set forth herein. 

7. Section 465.016(1)(f), Florida Statutes (2012), having been 

convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication, In a court of this state 

or other jurisdiction, of a crime which directly relates to the ability to 

practice pharmacy or to the practice of pharmacy. A plea of b 
Depatnent of HSU, v. Samuel E. Wahba, RPH 

2 Case Number 2013073fl 



contendere constitutes a conviction for purposes of this provision. A 
violation of this statute grounds for discipline. 

8. On or about June 11, 2013, in the United States District Court, 
Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in case number --rt 
3OEAJ, Respondent pled guilty to one count of conspiracy to commit 
healthcare fraud, in violation of Title 8 United States Code § 371, a crime 
which directly relates to the ability to practice pharmacy or to the practice 
of pharmacy. 

9. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 
465.016(1)(f), Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicts or found guilty, 
regardless of adjudication, in a court of this state or other jurisdiction, of a 

crime which directly relates to the ability to practice pharmacy or to the 
practice of pharmacy. 

COUNT TWO 

10. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraphs one (1) 
through five (5) as if fully set forth herein. 

11. Section 16(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 
violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopteci 
pursuant thereto, constitutes grounds for discipline. 

Depfliient of Health v. Samuel E. Wahba, RPH 

3 
Cage Number 2013-07373 



12. Section 456.072(1)(Il) Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 
being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, any 
misdemeanor or felony, regardless of adjudication a crime in any 
jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud Constitutes grounds for 
discipline.. 

13. Respondent; is licensed pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida 
Statutes, and is a health care practitioner as defined In Section 456.001(4), 
Florida Statutes (2012). 

14. On or about June 11, 2013, in the United States District Court, 
Middle District of Florida, Tampa DMsion, in case number 8: 
3OEAJ, Respondent; pled guilty to one count of conspiraw to Commit 
healthcare fraud, in violation of Title 18 UnIted States Code § 371, a crime 
which relates to health care fraud. 

15. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section (1)(r) Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 456.o72(1)(ll), 
Florida Statutes (2012), by being convicts of, or entering a plea of guilty 
or nob contendere to, any misdemeanor or felony, regardless of 
adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud. 

Depamnent of Health v. Samu& E. Wthba, RPI4 

4 

Case Number 3 
-—-- 

- 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 1 day of b-tr - 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

il-Ann V. 

FILED ;istant l Prosecution Services Unit 
a ypress Way, Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar Number 0073525 DATE__NuV 0 8 
(850) 245 4444 Telephone 
(850) 245 - 4683 Facsimile 

/JVJ 

POP Date: November 7, 2013 

POP Members: Meshad and Weizer 

Deparvnent of Health v. Samuel E. Wabba, RPM 

5 Case Number .07373 



NOTICE OP RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE G ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this mater. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

Depatnent of Health V. Samu& E. Wahba, 
6 Case Number 2013-07373 

, 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

all people in Florida through integrated 

state, & communfty efforts. 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
31201 US Highway 19W, Suite 3. 
Palm Harbor, Florida 34684 

Re: DOH vs. Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
DOH Case' Number 201 3-07373 

Dear Mr. Wahba: 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. 
Relinquishment of License form you agreed to the following: 

By signing the Voluntary 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist in the State of Florida; and 
• Voluntarily relinquishing your Florida Pharmacist license may have an effect on Pharmacist 

licenses that you may hold in other states. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850- 
245-4444 and extension 6113. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board 
of Nursing will take up your request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting 
scheduled for February 5, 2014, at the Double Tree by Hilton, 60 South Ivanhoe Boulevard 1 Florida 32804. You are not required to attend the meeting. 

JAVJ/pb 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General counsel • Prosewifon Services Unit 
4052 Baid Cypress Way, Bin C.65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX 850/245.4683 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBO : FL c pa rtrne n toHea th 

YQIJTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the NaUon 

December 4, 2013 

Sincerely, 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Page 1 of2 

Christopher, Tamia L 

From: Christopher, Tamia L 

Sent: Wednesday, October 231 2013 11:42 AM 

To: DL MQA nv Serv Priority Mail Area5 (P1) St.Petersburg 

Cc: Pope, Berita 

Subject: Request for Hand Serve, EROfWahba, 13-07373 

Attachments: DOH 13-2024 ESO 201307373-1_Samuel E. Wahba, RPh.pdf; lnvst. Rpt._Samuel E. Wahba, 
RPh_13-07373.pdf 

Please hand servethe attached ESO on the Respondent. 

Thank you. 

Tamia L. Christopher, Regulatory Specialist / 

Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
(850) 245-4640 ext. 8200 (Office) 
(Mailing Address) 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(Physical Address) 
2585 Merchants Row, Suite 105 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

How am I communicating? Please contact my . 
Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or 
from state officials regarding state business are public records available to the public and 
media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public 
disclosure. 

However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial administrative 
proceedings to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this e-mail is an attorney- 
client communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the 
provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statute. 

See Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statute (2010). 

DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through 
integrated state, county, & community efforts. 

Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 
Values: (ICARE) 
Innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
Collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
Accountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
Responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 
Excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & cqntinuous performance 

10/23/20 13 



Minion: 
To promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, & efforts. 

7 

r 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

PSU RE QUEST FORM 
FROM: Tamia Christopher For 

J odi-Ann V. Johnson, Esquire 

TO: Karen Hanzal, Supvr., Area 5 (P1) 

St Petersburg 

Date: 10/23/13 TO: CSU 

Phone #: 850/245/4444 Ext 8200 CC: 

Board: Pharmacy 

HL Code: HLL79A Status: 90 

Case Number 20 13-07373 
Subject Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 

Requested Completion Date: A.S.A.P 

Was this case originally worked by CSU or in an area office different from where this service request is being 
sent? YES fl NOTE: All process service requests need to be sent to appropriate field office. 
**IF YES, please send a copy of the original Investigative Report without . 
Florida Department of Health 
Division of Prosecution 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 015 Tallahassee FL 32399- 
PHONE: 850-245-4444 FAX 850-245-4662 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACE BO K: F L Depa rUne ntofl-l ea Ith 

YOUTUBE; fidoh 

(PSU) TYPE OF REQUEST: (describe details below) 
Process Service* (Activity Code I 60) 

fl Additional Information Requested (Activity Code 145) fl Deficiency in Investigative Work (Activity Code I 50) 
Details: For Hand Service of ESO 
Last Known Address: 4465 Lavender Drive, Palm Harbor, Florida 34685. 
Last Known Name & Phone Number: Samuel E. Wahba, (727) 787-6382 
Last Known Place of Employment & Address if Known: 
Has Contact Been Made With This Individual? YES N0Z; If Yes, When? 

(ISU/CSU) RESPONSE: 

fl Process Service Completed (Activity Code 161) fl Process Service NOT Completed 
(Activity Code 162) 

fl Additional Info Sent to Legal (Activity Code 156) fl Supp. Investigation Request Cancelled (Activity Code 157) 

Email 
Tallahasse Alachu Jacksonvill St. Orland a L to: Miami a e Myers faim Uuderdaie Pensacola 

Consume 

Services ULA 



TO: 

7196 900& 9111 hE 5374 

Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
4465 Lavender Drive 
Palm Harbor, FL 34685 
I13-07373_Jodi-Ann Johnson Esq. 
10/23/13 

SENDER: 

REFERENCE: 

x 
0. Is delivery address different Iron Item 1? 

II YES, enter delivery address 

.c- oni 
y 
— 

o Agrint 
Mdroas& 

D Yes 

Cue 

PS Form 3811, January 2005 Domestic Return Receipt 

P$ Form 3800, January 2005 

RETURN 
RECEIPT 
SERVICE 

Postage 

Certified Fee 

Return Receipt Fee 

Restilcied Delivery 

Total Postage & Fees 

POSTMARK OR DATE US Postal Servicee 

• F 
Receipt for 

Certified Mair 
No Insuranco Coverage Provided 
Do Not Use for International Mail 

2. Mlcie Number 

7196 90DB 911]. 5772 5374 

I 
A. Received by (Please Print Clearly) 

C. Signature 

3. Service Type CERTIFIED MAIL'" 

8. Dete ot Dflre,y 

1. Article Addressed to: 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) ives 

Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
4465 Lavender Drive 
Palm Harbor, FL 34685 9 
ESO/13-07373_Jodi-Aflfl Johnson Esq. 



Scott 
vernor 

Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

____________ 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community 

HEALTH Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Staten the Nation 

October 23, 2013 

Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 

4465 Lavender Drive 
Palm Harbor, FL 34685 

RE: Department of Health vs. Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2013-07373 

Certified Article Number 

7196 9111 5772 5374 
SENDERS 

Dear Mr. Wahba: 

Enclosed please find an Order of Emergency Suspension of Ucense filed October 23, 2013, 
against your license to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. You should immediately 
cease the practice as a pharmacist according to the enclosed Order of Emergency Suspension of 
License. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Jodi-Ann Johnson, Assistant General 
Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

Sincerely, I 
Tamia Christopher 
Regulatory Specialist, I 
Prosecution Services Unit 

Florida Department of Hoalth 
Office ot the General Counsel Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2M5 Merchants Row. Suite 105 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 1245-4662 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TwrERHeclth',cLA 

oepamnentcfHealth 
VOUTUBE: fldoh 

/tc 
Enclosure 



In of the Uce,se of 
Samuel E- Waliba, R.PtL 

Uceise No.: PS 27213 
Case No.: 2013-07373 STATE OF FLORIDA Final Order No. 

-NIQ.t DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Flt.EDD&TPCT 23 2013 
Depart t Health 

o 
In Re: Emergency Suspension of the License of 

- 

Samuel E. Wabba, R.Ph. 
License No.: PS 27213 
Case No.: 2013-07373 

ORDER OF EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF LICENSE 

John H. Armstrong, , FAGS, State Surgeon General and Secretary 
of Health, ORDERS the emergency suspension of the license of Samuel 

Wahba, R.Ph., to practice as a registered pharmacist in the State of Florida. 
Mr. Wahba holds license number PS 27213. His address of record is 4465 
Lavender Drive, Palm Harbor, Florida 34685. The foflowing Findings of Fact 
and Conclusions of Law support the emergency suspension of Mr. Wahba's 
license to practice as a registered pharmacist. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Department of Health (Department) is the state agency 
charged with regulating the practice of nursing pursuant to Chapters 20, 
456, and 465, Florida Statutes. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes 
(2013), authorizes the Department to ly suspend Mr. Wahba's 
license to practice as a registered pharmacist. 

1 



In Re: Emergency Suspensior of the License of 
Samus E. Wahba, tPh. 

License No.: PS 27213 
- Case No.: 2013-07373 
2. At all times material to this Order, Mr. Wahba was licensed to 

practice as a registered pharmacist in the State of Florida pursuant to 

Chapter 465, Florida Statutes (2012). 

3. On or about May 2, 2013, an Information was filed in the 

United States District Court, Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in 

case number charging Mr. Wahba with conspiracy in 

violation of Title 18 United States Code § 371. Mr. Wahba was arrested on 

May 23, 2013. 

4. On or about June 11, 2013, in the United States District Court, 

Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division, in case number 8: 13-CR-232-T- 

3OEAJ, Mr. Wahba pled guilty to one coUnt of conspiracy to commit 

healthcare fraud, in violation of Title 18 United States Code § 371, and was 

adjudged guilty. 

5. Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2013), provides that the 

Department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any 

person licensed under Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, who enters a plea of 
guilty to a misdemeanor or felony under 18 United States Code § 371, 

regardless of adjudication. 

2 



In Re: Emergency of the of 
Samuel E. Wahba, 

Ucs,se No.: PS 27213 
Case No.: 2013-07373 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the State Surgeon General and 

Secretary of Health concludes as follows: 

1. The Department has jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 20.43 and 

456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2013), and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes 

(2013). 

2. The Department is mandated to summarily suspend Mr. 

Wahba's license to practice as a registered pharmacist in accordance with 

Section 456.074(1), Florida Statutes (2013). 

WHEREFORE, in accordance with Section 456.074(1), Florida 

Statutes, it is ORDERED ThAT: 

1. The license of Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph., license number PS 

27213, is immediately suspended. 

2. A proceeding seeking formal suspension or discipline of the 

license of Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph., to practice as a registered pharmacist 

will be promptly instituted and acted upon in compliance with Section 

120.569, Florida Statutes. 

3 



In : Emergency of the Ucense of 
Samuel Wahba, R.PtI. 

Ucense No.: PS 27213 
Case No.: 2013-07373 

DONE and ORDERED this day of October, 2013. 

S eSurgeon General 
and Secretary of Health 

PREPARED BY: 
Jodi-Anny. Johnson 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
(850) 245 — 4444 Telephone 
(850) 245 — 4683 Facsimile 
Florida Bar No. 0073525 



In Re: Ernsgency Suspeton of the License of 
Samuel E. Wahba, Rat 

ljcenser4o.: PS 27213 
Case No.: 2013-07373 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW 

Pursuant to Section 120.68, Florida Statutes, this Order is judicially 

reviewable. Review proceedings are governed by the Florida Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. Proceedings are commenced by filing a Petition for 

Review, in accordance with Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.100, with 

the District Court of Appeal, accompanied by a filing fee prescribed by law, 

and a copy of the petition with the Agency aerk of the Department within 

30 days of the date this Order is filed. 

$ 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health - 

of all people in through integrated 

state, county&community efin, a John H. Annetrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH Surgeon General & Secretary 

- Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

October 23, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 

Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division of Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

RE: Department of Health vs. Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
Case Number: 2013-07373 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the Department has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the license of Samuel E. Wahba to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida. 
An Administrative Complaint has not been issued in the above case. Therefore, this is not a 

request for a format hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of the 
possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Department shall keep you 
advised of any developments. If you need additional information, please contact Jodi-Ann 
Johnson, Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245-4444. 

Sincerely, 

Tamia Christopher 
Regulatory Specialist, I 
Prosecution Services Unit 

/tc 

Florida Departmont of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Seivices Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDeparUiientofhealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Pow - Suite 105 YOIJTUBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245.4662 



** Transmit 
P.1 Oct 232013 

Fax/Phone Number Mode Start Time age Result Note 

Normal 0'29" 1 * o K 

Rick Scott .st.on 
op 

__________ 

& .MD, FAGS , GenerS & 

S the Natni 

October 23, 2013 

The Honorable Robert S. Cohen 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Division at Administrative Hearings 
1230 Apalachee Parkway 
ahassee, FL 32301 

RE: Departhierit of Health vs. Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph. 
Case Number: -07373 

Dear Judge Cohen: 

This letter is to advise you that the ment has issued an Emergency Suspension Order 
concerning the license of Samuel E. Wahba to practice as a pharmacist in the State of Florida, 
An Mministratnie Complaint has not been issued in the above case. Therefore, this is not a 
request for a formal hearing. 

This letter is sent to advise you of the action taken by the Department and to advise you of the 
possibility that the respondent may request an expedited hearing. The Depatnent shalt keep you 
advised of any developments, If you need additional information, please contact Joth-Ann 
Johnson, Assistant General Counsel at (850) 245.4444. 

Sincerely, 

Tamia Christopher 
Regulatory Specialist, I 
Prosecution Services Unit 

/tc 

Flonto. o.panne.m of Health idnHenlthazoai 
be s Cared • 

4052 • Way, . 
Merest Sub 105 eoh C • /245-4682 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Gave To protect, promote & improve the health 

of a! peo* in 

John 14. Armstrong, FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Florida Administrative Registry 

FROM: Tamia Christopher, Regulatory Specialist I 

RE: Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph., PS#: 27213(FAW.# 13721831) 

CASE NO: 201 3-07373 

DATE: October23, 2013 

Attached please find notice of the issuance of an Emergency Suspension Order for notice in the next issue of the 
Florida Administrative Register. 

On October 23, 13, the State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of 
Samuel E. Wahba, R;Ph., P5Th 27213. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an 
immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) 'and 120.60(6) Florida Statutes 
(20!!). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other 
method available to adequately protect the public. 

Florida Department of Health 
. .com 

Services Unit 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65-Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE:850-245-4444. FAX 850-245-4662 VOUTUBE: fldoh 



Christopher, Tamia L 

From: 1 Alyson 
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2013 2:07 PM 
To: Christopher, Tarnia L 

Subject: FW: Submit Notice in FAR 

* Alyson Motes, Compliance Officer 
* Assistant to Therese Savoria, Appeals 
* & Linda McMullen, Unlicensed Activity 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C—65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245—4444 * 8134 

* How am I communicating? Please contact my supervisor. 

* Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written 
communications to or from state officials regarding state business are public records 
available to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may therefore 
be subject to public disclosure. 

* However, if this e—mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial 
administrative proceeding to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this email 
is an attorney—client communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document 
exempt from the provisions of Chapter k19, Florida Statutes. 
* See Section 119.071(d)L, Florida Statutes (201D) 

* DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida 
through integrated state, county, & community efforts. 

* Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 

* Values: (ICARE) 
* I nnovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
* C ollaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
* A ccountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
* R esponsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our 
partners. 
* E xcellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance 
improvement. 

Original Messag 
From: FL—Rules@dos.state.fl.us mailto:FL—Rules@dos.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2013 2:06 PM 
To: Motes, Alyson 
Subject: Submit Notice in FAR 

You have successfully submitted a notice for publication in the Florida Administrative Register on 10/23/2013 2:05:44 PM. 

Department: Department of Health 
Organization: Board of Pharmacy 
Notice type: Miscelianeous 
Issue: 39/208 

Once this notice is published you will be able to view it by clicking the following link: http: //www. FLRules.org/gateway/ViewNotice.asp?jd13721831 
1 



TRANSMISSION VERIFICATION REPORT i 
• TIME ;M&t7472013 @ 

NAI'E 
FAX 
TEL 
SEP.14 00L1N188533 

DATE,TIME 09/24 13:10 
FAX NO. /NAttE 619122746358 
DURATION 80:00:27 
PAGE(S) 01 
RESULT OK 
MODE STANDARD 

ECM 



Rick Scott 
Governor To protect, pmmote & Improve the health 

____ 

John H. FAtS 
HEALTH Stale Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

September 9, 2013 

U.S. Attorney's 
400 North Tampa Street, Suite 3200 
Tampa, Fl, 33802 

Subject: Samuel E. Wahba, PS 
Social Security Number: XXX-XX-6008 
Date of BUlb: April 2, 1967 
DOH Reference Number 201307373 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

The above healthcare practitioner was convicted of a crime in your court that may be related to the practice of Pharmacist in Florida. The Department of Health is required to investigate possible violations of the laws and rules regulating this practitioners profession. 

We need the following information so that the department can review this matter and take appropriate action. Please submit a certified copy ot 

• the warrant; 
• the Bill of Indictment or Information 
• the Judgment or Conviction; 
• the Arrest Report; and 
• any additional public information that may relate to this practitioner's professional practice. 

If there is a charge for these certified copies, please send an itemized invoice with your Federal Employer Identification number, the amount per page, and the total number of pages. 

Pursuant to Section 28345 F.S, Exemption from court-related fees and charges.- Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter or law to the contrary, judges and those court staff acting on behalf of judges, state attorneys, guardians ad litem, public guardians, attorney ad htem, court-appointed private counsel, criminal conflict and CMI regional counsel, and public defenders, acting in their official capacity, and state agencies, are exempt from all court-related fees and charges assessed by the clerics of the circuit courts. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Piorida through integrated state, county,& community efforts. If you have any questions, please call the Consumer Services. Unit at (850) 245-4339. In addition, If you have any concerns or suggestions about our complaint process, please f'dI out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions form at 

Sincerely, 

- 

Jacquelynn M. Hairston 
Investigation Specialist I 

JMH/tb 
DOF-l-Forni2QS 

Florida Department of Health . 

. lealth.com 
Division of Quality Assurance' Bureau of Enforcement 

. TWITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C—75 llahassee, FL 32299-3275 
PHONE (850) 245-4339 'FAX: (850) 488-0796 

YOLJTIJSE: fldoh 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 6 Filed 05/23/13 age 1 of 1. PagelD 46 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

CLERK'S MINUTES 

CASENO. 8:13-CR-232-T-3OEAJ DATE: May 23. 2013 

HONORABLE ELIZABETH A. JENKINS INTERPRETER N/A 
LANGUAGE________________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AUSA Simon Gaugush 
v. Government Counsel 

SAMUEL E. WAHHA Biorn Brunvand, . 
Defendant Defense Counsel 

COURT RPTRJ'TAPE DEPUTY CLERK Cathy Morgan 

TIME 11:06- 11:20 TOTAL — COURTROOM 11 A 

PROCEEDINGS: INITIAL APPEARANCE/BOND HEARING 
(Circle proceedings that apply) 

X Deft provided w/copy of Information 
X ARREST DATE: May 23. 2013 
X Court summarized charges 
X Court advises of Deft's Rule 5 rights 
X Govt position on release - signature bond 
X .: $50,000.00 signature 

X Pretrial Service supervision 
X Travel is enlarged to the State of Florida 
X May travel to Georgia from 5/30 to 6/2 
X Seek and or maintain full time legitimate employment which does not 

involve reimbursement from medicare or any other federal reimbursement program. 
X Shall not change his address without prior court approval 
X Shall surrender his United States passport to Pretrial Services by 4:00 pm on 5/24/13 
X Shall surrender his Egyptian passport by 5/27/13 at 4:00 pm to Pretrial Services 
X Shall not obtain any passports or travel documents 



Case 8: 3-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Piled 11/07/13 Page 1 of 7 PagelD 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION .D STATES OF AMERICA 

Case Number. 8:13-cr-232-T-3OEAJ 
USM Number: 58658-018 

SAMUEL E. WARBA 
Bjorn Erik Brurivand, Retained 

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 

The defendant pleaded guilty to Count One of the Information. Accordingly, the court has adjudicated that the defendant 
is guilty of the following offense: 

Date Offense Count 
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded ) 

18 U.S.C. § 371 Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud, to May 2, 2013 One 
Make False Statements to a Federal Agency, to 
File False Claims ror Payment to Federal Health 
Care Programs and to Conceal and to Fail to 
Disclose Exclusion from Federal Health Care 
Programs in Connection with Claims for Payment 

The defendant is sentenced as provided in the following pages of this judgment, The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. 

IT IS ORDERED that the defendant shall notify the United States attorney for thia district within 30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs and special assessments imposed by this judgment are fully paid. If ordered to pay restitution, the defendant shall notify the court and United States attorney of any material change in the defendant's economic circumstances. 

Date of Imposition of Sentence: 

November 7, 2013 

4- 
S. 1 JR. \ 

U&rtED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

November 7 2013 
CAj 

) ) 

AD 2458 (Rev. 4109) Judgment in a Criniinal case 



Case 8: t3-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Filed 11/07/13 Page 2 of 7 PagelD 
SAMUEL E,WAHB 0E. 

ISONMENT 
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a 

total term of TWENTY-FOUR (24) MONTHS as to CountOne of the Information, 

The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons as 
notified by the United States MarshaL 

RETURN 

I have executed this judgment as follows: 

Defendant delivered on 

______________________ 

to 

_________________________________________ 

at 

____________________________________________________ 

with a certified copy of this judgment, 

UNITED STATES MARSHAL 

By: 

_________________________________ 

Deputy U.S. Marshal 

AC 2458 (Rev. 4/09) Judgment in a criminal case 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Filed 11/07/13 Page 3 of 7 PagelD 134 
SAMUEL E.WAHFP. 
8:13-cr-232-T-30E/ J 

SUPERVISED RELEASE 

Upon release from imprisonment the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of THREE (3) YEARS 
as to Count One of the Information, 

The defendant shall report to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours 
of release from custody of the Bureau of Prisons. 

The defendant shall not commit another federal, state or local crime. 

The defendant shall not illegally possess a controlled Substance. 

For offenses committed on or after September 13, 1994: 

The mandatory drug testing requirements of the Violent crime Control Act are waived. However, the Court orders the defendant to submit to random drug testing not to exceed 104 tests per year. 

The defendant shall not possess a firearm, destructive device, or any other dangerous weapon. 

If this judgment imposes a fine or a restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervision that the defendant 
pay any such fine or restitution that remains unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervision in accordance with 
the Schedule of Payments set forth in the Criminal Monetary Penalties sheet of this judgment 

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court (set forth below). 

The defendant shall also comply with the additional conditions on the attached page. 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION 

1. the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer; 

2. the defendant shall report to the probation officer in a manner and frequency directed by the court or probation 
officer; 

3. the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the 
probation officer; 

4. the defendant shall suppod his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities; 

5. the defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation, unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, 
training, or other acceptable reasons; 

6. the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least ten (10) days prior to any change in residence or 
employment; 

7. the defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute, or 
administer any controlled substance or any paraphernalia related to any controlled substances, except as prescribed by a physician: 

8. the defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or 
administered; 

9. the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity and shall not associate with any 
person convicted of a felony, unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer; 

A0 2455 (Rev. /09) Judgment in a Criminal case 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Filed 11/07/13 Page 4 of 7 PagelD 
SAMUEL E. WAHBA 
8:1 3-cr-232-T-3OECJ 
10. the defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit 

confiscation of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer; 

11. the defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two (72) hours of being arrested or questioned by 
a law enforcement officer; 

12, the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a Jaw enforcement 
agency without the permission of the court; 

13. as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the 
defendant's criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make 
such notifications and to confirm the defendant's compliance with such notification requirement. 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISED RELEASE 

1. The defendant shall cooperate in the collection of DNA, as directed by the Probation Officer, 

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES 

The defendant shall pay the following total criminal monetary penalties in accordance with the schedule of 
payments set forth in the Schedule of Payments. 

Total Assessment Total Fine Total Restitution 

$100.00 Waived N/A 

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS 

Special assessment shall be paid in full and is due immediately. 

FORFEITURE 

Defendant shall forfeit to the United States those assets previously identified in plea agreement that are subject to 
forfeiture. 

The defendant shall pay interest on any fine or restitution of more than $2,500, unless the flne or restitution is paid 
in full before the fifteenth day after the date of the judgment, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f). All of the payment options 
on the Schedule of Payments may be subject to penalties for delinquency and default, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 3612(g). 

Findings for the total amount of losses are required under Chapters 109A, 110, I bA, and I 13A of TiLle 18, united States code, (or offenses committed 
on or aFter September 13. 1994 but before l 23, 1996, 

AO 2458 tRev. 4109) Judgment in a Criminal case 



Case B:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Filed 11/07/13 Page 5 of 7 PagelD 136 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. CASE NO. 8:13-cr-232-T-3OEAJ 

SAMUEL WAHBA 

ORDER VACATING THE PRELIMINARY ORDER OF 
FORFEITURE FOR SUBSTITUTE ASSETS 

The United States moves to amend the Forfeiture Money Judgment and 

Preliminary Order of Forfeiture for Substitute Assets (Doe. 25) by vacating the 

preliminary order of forfeiture for substitute assets. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 982(a)(7), 981(a)(1)(C), 28 U.S.C. § , 
and Rule ,2(b)(2), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the court held that the 

United States was entitled to a forfeiture money judgment against the defendant, 

and on October 31, 2013 the court entered a forfeiture money judgment in the 

amount of $5,281,931.00 against defendant Samuel Wahba, representing the 

amount of proceeds he obtained as a result of the conspiracy to commit health 

care fraud offenses, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1347, 18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(2) and 

(a)(3), 18 U.S.C. § 1035(a)(2), and 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b( )(3), all in violation of 

18 U.S.C. § 371, as charged in Count One of the Information. 

To satisfy the defendant's money judgment, the court further found that 

the United States was entitled, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853(p), to forfeit any 

property belonging to the defendant as a substitute asset up to and including the 

amount of $5,281,931.00. 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Filed 11/07/13 Page 6 of 7 PagelD 137 

The court now finds that it is in the best interest of the United States to 

vacate the Preliminary Order of Forfeiture for the following substitute assets: 

a. a 2013 Audi 07 Ouattro 4dr 3.OT S line Prestige, 
Vehicle Identification No. WA1 DGAFE8DDO1 4159; 

b. a 1991 Porsche 911 coupe, Vehicle Identification 
No. WP0AA2960MS48031 4; and 

c. a 2012 Thor Motor Coach, Vehicle Identification 
No. 1 F66F5DY8C0A00325. 

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED: 

1. That the United States' motion is GRANTED. 

2. Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(7), 18 U.S.C § 981(a)(1)(C), 

28 U.S.C. § (c), and Rule ,2(b)(2), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, 

the Forfeiture Money Judgment (Doc. 25) against defendant Samuel Wahba in 

the amount of $5,281,931.00 shall remain in full farce and effect. 

3. The Preliminary Order of Forfeiture for the Substitute Assets (Doc. 

25) described above is hereby VACATED. The defendant will sell the Audi 

vehicle and the proceeds will be furnished to the government in partial 

satisfaction of the defendant's money judgment. The proceeds from the sale of 

the 1991 Porsche 911 coupe and the 2012 Thor Motor Coach also will be 

furnished to the United States in partial satisfaction of the defendant's money 

judgment. 

4. The Court retains jurisdiction to enter any further order necessary 

for the forfeiture and disposition of these assets and any property belonging to 

the defendant that the government may seek as substitute assets, up to the 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 30 Filed 11/07/13 Page 7 of 7 PagelD 138 

value of the money judgment, and to address any third party claim that may be 

asserted in these proceedings. 

5. Upon receipt by the government, the defendant's money judgment 

will be credited with the proceeds from the sale of the properties described 

above. 

ORDERED in Tampa, Florida, on November 7, 2013 

S. OODY, .FR. 
ITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

Copies to: 
Counsel/Parties of Record 



ease Document 1 Filed 05102113 Page 1 of 15 PagelD 1 

FILED 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT NAY 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

h 

TAMPA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

v. CASENO. 

SAMUEL WAHBA 18 U.S.C. § 371 
18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(7) - Forfeiture 
18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C) - Forfeiture 
28 U.S.C. § 2461(c) - Forfeiture 

INFORMATION 

The United States Attorney charges: 

COUNT ONE 
(Conspiracy - 18 U.S.C. § 371) 

Introduction 

At all times material to this Information: 

A. The Medicaid Program 

1. The Medicaid Program "), as established by the Social 

Security Act, was a cooperative federal-state health care benefit program that 

enabled the states to furnish necessary medical benefits, items, and services to 

indigent families and individuals ("Medicaid beneficiaries") who were unable to 

meet the costs of the benefits, items, and services. 

2. The State of Florida administered Medicaid through the Florida 

Agency for Health Care Administration ("ARCA"). 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 2 of 15 PagelD 2 

3. In order to be reimbursed by Medicaid, an entity providing medical 

benefits and services to Medicaid beneficiaries (the "provider") first had to enter 

into a Medicaid Provider Enrollment Agreement. This Medicaid Provider 

Enrollment Agreement was submitted to AHCA for approval. 

4. A private corporation under contract with ACHA acted as a "fiscal 

intermediary" and was authorized to receive and process Medicaid claims on 

behalf of ACHA. To receive reimbursement for benefits or services provided to a 

Medicaid beneficiary, the provider transmitted a claim for reimbursement to the 

fiscal intermediary. Providers were reimbursed with federal funds. 

B. The Medicare Program. Part D 

5. The Medicare Program ("Medicare") was a federal health care 

benefit program that provided medical benefits, items and services to persons 

age 65 and older or with certain disabilities ("Medicare beneficiaries"). 

6. The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (°CMS"), an 

agency within the United States Department of Health and Human Services, 

oversaw and administered Medicare throughoutthe United States. 

7. Medicare included coverage under several components. Part D of 

Medicare ("Medicare Part D") subsidized the costs of providing prescription drugs 

to Medicare beneficiaries in the United States. Medicare Part D was enacted as 

part of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 

2003, which went into effect on January 1, 2006. 

2 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 3 of 15 PagelD 3 

B. Private insurance plans administered Medicare Part D benefits (the 

"Medicare Part D plans"). These Medicare Part D plans then sought 

reimbursement from Medicare, through CMS, for the benefits provided to 

Medicare beneficiaries. 

9. A pharmacy could contract with one or more Medicare Part D plans 

to provide covered benefits to Medicare beneficiaries. By contracting with these 

Medicare Part D plans, a pharmacy could provide covered benefits (Le., 

dispense prescription drugs) to Medicare beneficiaries and expect 

reimbursement from Medicare for providing such benefits. A pharmacy that 

furnished Medicare Part D benefits could also submit claims for payment to a 

Medicare Part D plan with which it did not have a contract. In either case, the 

pharmacy would submit a claim for reimbursement to the particular Medicare 

Part D plan for prescription benefits provided to the Medicare beneficiary. The 

pharmacy used the Medicare beneficiary's health insurance claim number and/or 

the Medicare Plan Identification number to submit a claim for reimbursement to 

the Medicare Part D plan. Ultimately, the Medicare Part D plan would send a 

reimbursement check to the pharmacy or initiate an electronic transfer of funds 

to the pharmacy's bank account for the benefits provided to the beneficiary. The 

Medicare Part D plan then sought reimbursement from Medicare, through CMS, 

for payments made to the pharmacy. CMS reimbursed Medicare Part D plans 

with federal funds. 

3 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 4 of 15 PagelD 4 

C. TRICARE 

10. 1CARE was a triple option health care benefit plan of the United 

States Department of Defense Military Health System. Eligible TRICARE 

beneficiaries included members of all seven branches of the Uniformed 

Services: Army, Air Force, Navy, Marine Corps, National Oceanic Atmospheric 

Administration, Coast Guard, and the commissioned corps of the Public Health 

Service. TRICARE received federal funds allocated through the annual 

Department of Defense Appropriation Acts. A private corporation under contract 

with TRICARE acted as a "fiscal intermediary" and was authorized to receive and 

process claims for reimbursement on behalf of TRICARE. Health care service 

providers (such as pharmacies) were reimbursed with federal funds for benefits 

and services provided to TRICARE beneficiaries. 

D. The Defendant's Exclusion from All Federal Health Care Programs 

11. SAMUEL WAHBA was a pharmacist licensed in the State of 

Florida and a resident of Pinellas County, Florida. 

12. On or about August 10, 2001, SAMUEL -IBA was convicted of 

one count of violating the Florida Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt 

Organization Act (RICO), one count of Medicaid Provider Fraud, one count of 

Grand Theft (Second Degree), and one count of Grand Theft (Third Degree), in 

the State of Florida v. Samuel , Case No. CRCOO-15237CFAN0, in the 

Circuit Court of the Sixth Judicial Circuit, in and for Pinellas County, Florida (the 

4 



case 5:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1. Filed 05/02/13 Page 5 of 15 PagelD 5 

"2001 felony convictions"). The 2001 felony convictions arose out of SAMUEL 

WAHBA's operation of Clover Pharmacy, located at 3325 Tampa Road, in Palm 

Harbor, Florida. 

13. On or about July 31, 2002, SAMUEL WAHBA received notice that 

he was "excluded in any capacity from participation in the Medicare, Medicaid, 

and i Federal health care programs as defined in section 11 28B(f) of the Social 

Security Act (Act) for a minimum period of 15 years." (emphasis in original). This 

exclusion was based on SAMUEL WAHBA's 2001 felony convictions. This 

exclusion notice also advised SAMUEL WAHBA of the following: 

You are excluded from participation in the Medicare, Medicaid, 
and !ll Federal health care programs as defined in section 1128B(f) 
(42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b) of the Social Security Act. The effect of this 
exclusion is that no program payment will be made to you for anything 
that you do, order, or prescribe, or to any employer for anything that 
you do, order, or prescribe to program patients. . . during the period 
you are excluded. 

This exclusion is global, regardless of your job or location. It 
applies in all States and in all programs. It applies to all Federal 
procurement and non-procurement programs and activities. 

* * * 

Notwithstanding 42 U.S.C. 1395w-4(g)(4), any service you 
provide is a non-covered service. Therefore, you cannot submit 
claims or cause claims to be submitted for payment under any 
Federal health care program. Violations of the conditions of your 
exclusion may subject you to criminal prosecution, the imposition of 
civil monetary penalties (42 U.S.C. I 320a-7a —42 U.S.C. 1 320a-Tb), 
and the denial of your reinstatement to the programs. 

* * * 

5 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1. Filed 05/02/13 Page 6 of 15 PagelD 6 

YOUR REINSTATEMENT IS NOT AUTOMATIC. You will not 
be reinstated at the conclusion of the minimum period of exclusion, or 
anytime thereafter, UNLESS YOU APPLY TO THE OIG AND ARE 
GRANTED REINSTATEMENT to the Medicare and Federal health 
care programs under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. I 320a-7(g) and 42 
CFR 1001 .3001—.3005. 

(emphasis in original). 

E. The Defendant's OwnershiD and ODeration of St George Pharmacy 

14. On or about October 15, 2002, approximately two and a half 

months after his exclusion from participating in all federal health care programs, 

SAMUEL WAHBA used a nominee (hereinafter referred to as "Nominee l.N.") to 

register St George Pharmacy, Inc. ("St George Pharmacy") with the Florida 

Secretary of State, Division of Corporations. The Electronic Articles of 

Incorporation listed St. George Pharmacy as being located at 3325 Tampa 

Road, in Palm Harbor, Florida—the same location as Clover Pharmacy, which 

SAMUEL WAHBA previously owned and operated. Pursuant to the Articles of 

Incorporation, Nominee l.N. was the sole incorporator, officer, director, and 

registered agent of St. George Pharmacy. In truth and in fact, SAMUEL WAHBA 

was the sole owner and operator of St. George Pharmacy. SAMUEL WAHBA 

used Nominee IN. to register St. George Pharmacy with the Florida Secretary of 

State to conceal his connection with the pharmacy. 

15. On or about December 5, 2002, SAMUEL WAHBA and Nominee 

I.N. opened a corporate signature card account in the name of St. George 

Pharmacy at Bank of America. SAMUEL WAHBA signed the signature card for 

6 



case 8:13-cr-00232-.JSM-EAJ Documenf 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 7 of 15 PagelD 7 

this bank account, representing himself to be the "Manager" of St. George 

Pharmacy. Nominee l.N. was falsely listed on the signature card as the 

"President" of St. George Pharmacy. 

16. In order to bill Medicaid, a provider was required to first obtain a 

Medicaid Provider Number. On or about January 6, 2003, AHCA received a 

Medicaid Provider Enrollment Application from St. George Pharmacy, 

purportedly signed by Nominee IN. The Medicaid Provider Enrollment 

Application required the applicant to "identify all managers, billing agents, 

officers, directors and principal owners" of St. George Pharmacy. 

Notwithstanding this requirement, the Medicaid Provider Enrollment Application 

omitted any mention of SAMUEL WAHBA and falsely represented that Nominee 

l.N. was a 100% owner of St. George Pharmacy. In addition, the Medicaid 

Provider Enrollment Application required the applicant to explain whether any of 

the individuals listed as managers, billing agents, officers, directors and principal 

owners of St. George Pharmacy had ever been: (a) convicted of a felony, and (b) 

excluded from Medicare or Medicaid in any state. By omitting SAMUEL WAHBA 

as a manager and principal owner of St. George Pharmacy, SAMUEL WAHBA 

was able to conceal from AHCA his 2001 felony convictions and exclusion from 

participating in Medicaid, Medicare, TRICARE, and all other federal health care 

programs. As a result, on or about January 6, 2003, AHCA issued a Medicaid 

Provider Number to St. George Pharmacy and, subsequently, St. George 

7 



ease a:L3-cr-002iz-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 8 of 15 PagelD 8 

Pharmacy began submitting claims for reimbursement to Medicaid for 

prescription services provided to Medicaid beneficiaries. 

17. During the course of St. George Pharmacy's operations, it entered 

into contracts with various pharmacy networks that administered Medicare Part D 

and TRICARE. By virtue of St. George Pharmacy's in these 

pharmacy networks, St. George Pharmacy was also able to submit claims for 

reimbursement to Medicare Part D and TRICARE. 

16. From on or about October 15. 2002, through the present day, 

SAMUEL WAHBA has been the sole owner and operator of St. George 

Pharmacy, notwithstanding his exclusion from participation in all federal health 

care programs. 

19. Between on or about July 28, 2003 and August 1, 2012, St. George 

Pharmacy—through SAMUEL -IBA's ownership, direction, and 

control—submitted thousands of claims for reimbursement to Medicaid, 

Medicare Part 0, and TRICARE (through their respective fiscal intermediaries 

and pharmacy networks), and, in return, received over $5,000,000.00 in 

reimbursement from these federal health care programs. 

8 



case Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 9 of 15 PagelD 9 

The Conspiracy 

20. Beginning on an unknown date, but at least as early as on or about 

October 15, 2002, and continuing up through the date of this Information, in the 

Middle District of Florida and elsewhere, the defendant, 

SAMUEL WAHBA, 

did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with other 

individuals both known and unknown, to commit certain offenses, that is: 

a. to knowingly and willfully execute and attempt to execute, in 

connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and 

services, a scheme and artifice to defraud certain health care benefit programs 

affecting commerce, as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b), 

namely, Medicaid, Medicare Part D, and TRICARE, and to obtain, by means of 

materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, money 

and property owned by, and under the custody and control of, Medicaid, 

Medicare Part D, and TRICARE, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 1347; 

b. to knowingly and willfully make a materially false, fiàtitious, 

and fraudulent statement and representation and use a false writing and 

document knowing the same to contain a materially false, fictitious and 

fraudulent statement and entry, in a matter within the executive branch of the 

Government of the United States, in particular, the submission of a Medicaid 

9 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 10 of 15 PagelD 10 

Provider Enrollment Application to AHCA which falsely represented that 

Nominee l.N. was the owner and operator of St. George Pharmacy and 

concealed SAMUEL WAHBA's ownership and operation of St. George 

Pharmacy, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1001(a)(2) and 

(a)(3); 

c. to knowingly and willfully make materially false, fictitious, 

and fraudulent statements and representations, and make and use materially 

false writings and documents, knowing the same to contain materially false, 

fictitious, and fraudulent statements and entries, in connection with the delivery 

of and payment for health care benefits, items, and services, in a mailer 

involving certain health care benefit programs affecting commerce, namely, 

Medicaid, Medicare Part D, and TRICARE, in violation of Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 1035(a)(2); and 

d. having knowledge of the occurrence of an event, specifically, 

that SAMUEL WAHBA had been excluded from participation in any and all 

federal health care programs for a minimum period of 15 years and was actively 

participating in the operation of St. George Pharmacy, which affected St: George 

Pharmacy's initial and continued right to payment under any and all federal 

health care programs, including, Medicaid, Medicare Part D, and TRICARE, did 

conceal and fail to disclose such event with the intent fraudulently to secure such 

payments from Medicaid, Medicare Part 0, and TRICARE, when no such 

I0 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 11 of 15 PagelD 11 

payments were authorized, in violation of Title 42, United States Code, Section 

I 320a-7b(a)(3). 

Manner and Means of the Conspiracy 

21. The manner and means by which the conspirators sought to 

accomplish the objects of the conspiracy included, among other things, the 

following: 

a. It was a part of the conspiracy that SAMUEL WAHBA 

would and did own and operate St. George Pharmacy; 

b. It was further part of the conspiracy that the conspirators 

would and did form St. George Pharmacy in such a fashion as to conceal 

SAMUEL WAHBA's ownership and control of the pharmacy from all federal 

health care programs, including Medicaid, Medicare Part 0, and TRICARE; 

c. It was further part of the conspiracy that a conspirator would 

and did submit a Medicaid Provider Enrollment Application to AHCA omitting 

SAMUEL WAHBA's ownership of and managerial role in the operation of St. 

George Pharmacy; 

d. It was further part of the conspiracy that the conspirators 

would and did serve as nominee owners of St. George Pharmacy to conceal 

SAMUEL 's ownership and operation of St. George Pharmacy from 

Medicaid, Medicare Part D, and TRICARE; 

I 





Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EA.J Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 13 of 15 PagelD 13 

b. On or about December 5, 2002, SAMUEL WARBA and 

Nominee l.N. opened a corporate signature card account in the name of St. 

George Pharmacy at Bank of America; 

c. On or about December 5, 2002, SAMUEL WAHBA 

submitted, or caused to be submitted, to AHCA a Medicaid Provider Enrollment 

Application for St. George Pharmacy that fraudulently misrepresented Nominee 

l.N. as the sole owner of St. George Pharmacy and concealed SAMUEL 

WAHBA's ownership interest in the pharmacy, his 2001 felony convictions, and 

his exclusion from participation in all federal health care programs; 

d. On or about June 26, 2004, SAMUEL WAHBA caused St. 

George Pharmacy to submit a claim for reimbursement to Medicaid in the 

amount of $289.62 for dispensing a prescription of Lidoderm to Medicaid 

beneficiary M.V.; 

e. On or about November 25, 2009, SAMUEL WAHBA caused 

St. George Pharmacy to submit a claim for reimbursement to TRICARE in the 

amount of $319.41 for dispensing a prescription of Nexium to TRICARE 

beneficiary B.T.; and 

f. On or about January 25, 2012, SAMUEL WAI-IBA caused 

St. George Pharmacy to submit a claim for reimbursement to Medicare Part 0 in 

the amount of $103.15 for dispensing a prescription of Plavix to Medicare Part D 

beneficiary L.O. 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371. 

13 



Case 8:13-cr-00232-JSM-EAJ Document 1 Filed 05/02/13 Page 14 of 15 PagelD 14 

FORFEITURE 

1. The allegations contained in Count One of this Information are 

hereby realleged and incorporated by reference for the purpose of alleging 

forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of Title 18. United States Code, Section 

982(a)(7), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, 

United States Code, Section (c). 
2. From his engagement in the violations alleged in Count One of this 

Information, the defendant, 

SAMUEL WAHBA, 

shall forfeit to the United States of Amerióa, pursuant to Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 982(a)(7) any and all right, title, and interest he may have in any 

property, real or personal, which constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly, 

from gross proceeds traceable to such violations and, pursuant to Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, 

Section 2461(c), any property, real or personal, which constitutes or is derived 

from proceeds traceable to the conspiracy described in Count One of the - 

Information. The property to be forfeited includes, but is not limited to, a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $5,281,931.00, which represents the 

amount of proceeds traceable to the conspiracy charged in Count One of the 

Information. 

14 



BSEU 53 

AO 455 (Ray. ) Of 

42 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FORTHE 

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA = 
TAMPA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA WAIVER OF INDICTMEhiT 

v. Criminal No. -CR- aSQ._'t3 
SAMUEL WAHBA 

I, SAMUEL WAHBA, the above named defendant, who is accused of conspiracy 

to commit various offenses against the United States, including health care fraud, 

making false statements to a federal agency, submitting false claims for payment to 

federal health care programs, and concealIng and failing to disclose my exclusion from 

participation in all Federal health care programs In connection with claims for payment 

submitted to various Federal health care programs, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, 

being advised of the nature of the charges, the proposed Information, and of my rights, 

hereby waive prosecution by Indictment and consent that the proceeding may be by 

information rather than by Indictment, Pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 

7(b), I will confirm this waiver in open court at arraignment or other hearing. 

&T2Th 
SAMUEL WAHBA 
Defendant C . 
Counsel for Defendant 

Before 
.J icial Officer 



Rick Scott Mission: 
- Governor To protectS promote & Improve the health 

John H. Armstrong, 1 FACS 
H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secrelaiy 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

September 9, 2013 

U.S. Attorney's Office 
400 North Tampa Street, Suite 3200 
Tampa, Fl. 33602 

Subject: Samuel E. Wahba, PS 
Social Security Number: XXX-XX-6008 
Date of Birth: April 2, 1967 
DOH Reference Number: 201307373 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

The above healthcare practitioner was convicted of a crime in your court that may be related to the practice of Pharmacist in Florida. The Department of Health is required to investigate possible violations of the laws and rules regulating this practitioner's profession. 

We need the following information so that the department can review this matter and take appropriate action. Please submit a certified copy of: 

• the warrant; 
• the Bill of Indictment or Information 
• the Judgment or Conviction; 
• the Arrest Report; and 
• any additional public information that may relate to this practitioner's professional practice. 

If there is a charge for these certified copies, please send an itemized invoice with your Federal Employer Identification number, the amount per page, and the total number of pages. 

Pursuant to Section 28.345 F.S. Exemption from court-related fees and charges.- Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter or law to the contrary, judges and those court staff acting on behalf of judges, state attorneys, guardians ad item, public guardians, attorney ad litem, court-appointed private counsel, criminal conflict and civil regional counsel, and public defenders, acting in their official capacity, and state agencies, are exempt from all court-related fees and charges assessed by the clerks of the circuit courts. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. If you have any quastions, please call the Consumer Services Unit at (850) 245-4339. In addition, if you have any concerns or suggestions about our complaint process, please fill out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions form at 

Sincerely, 

Please Return Letter 
With Your Response. 

JMH/tb S 
Florida Department of Health calth.com 
Oivision of Medical Quality Assurance' Bureau of Enforcement ITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin 0-75' Tallahassee, FL 32399-3275 ]-leajth PHONE: (850) 245-4339 ' FAX: (850) 488-0796 vouluBE: fldoh 



MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: Samuel E. Wahba, RPh. 
Case Number: 2013-07373 

MEMBERS: Meshad and Weizer 

DATE OF PCP: November 7, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: ESO A-01 a... ..a.. .u 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 
being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Count I: Section 465.016(1)(f), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Count II: Section 465.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating 
Section 456.072(1)(ll), Florida Statutes (2012) 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

A 
Chair, fobable Cause Panel Date 
Board df Pharmacy 



FLORIDA DEPAKI'MENT 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Date of Complaint: Case Number: 
CONSUMER SERVICES June 18, 2013 PH 2013-07373 

SUBJECT: 
SAMUEL E WAHBA, R.PH. 
4465 LAVENDER DRIVE 
PALM HARBOR, FL 34685 
HOME PHONE: (727) 787-6382 

SOURCE: 
DOH CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, BIN C-75 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3275 
WORK PHONE: (850) 245-4339 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
PH 27213 Registered Pharmacist Pharmacy July 2, 2013 

Period of Investigation: Type of Report: 
June 27, 2013 through July 2, 2013 FINAL 

Possible violation of 5.5. 465.016(1 )(a)(f)((n)(r), 456.072(1 )(b)(c)(h)(k)(m)(dd)(iQ(Il), 456.074, F.S...Having been 
convicted or found guilty; Violating any provision of chapter 465 or chapter 456; Failure to perform legal obligation; 
Obtaining license through fraud/error; Fraud/deceit in practice of profession; Medicaid Fraud; Failure to report 
violation/exclusion from Medicaid-Medicare; Mandatory ESO. : This investigation is predicated on the receipt of documentation in the form of a press release by TBO.COM-THE 
TAMPA TRIBUNE and submitted to the CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT alleging that on May 3, 2013, WAHBA agreed to 
enter a plea of guilty with conspiracy to conmit various offenses against the United States, including: Health care fraud, 
False statements to a Federal agency, False claims for Payment to Federal Health Care Programs, and concealment 
and Failure to disclose Exclusion from Federal Health Care Programs in connection with claims for Payment, in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. S 371. Further review of licensure documentation revealed that WAHBA obtained licensure 
through fraud and failed to report exclusion from Medicaid/Medicare (Ex. #1, Case Summary, and attachments). 

WAHBA was notified of this complaint by Certified USPS letter, dated June 27, 2013, to the address of record with the 
BOARD OF PHARMACY, which included a copy of the Case Summary, and documents submitted by the CONSUMER 
SERVICES UNIT (Ex. #2). 

DOH computer information obtained July 2, 2013, indicates that WAHBA is licensed to practice as a Pharmacist in the 
State of Florida. WAHBA's license is in Clear/Active status. 

There is no patient involvement; therefore, patient notification was not required. 

WAHBA does not appear to be represented by counsel as of the date of this report. 

WAHBA has not responded as of this date. 

Related Case: PH 201 3-07507 

Approved Byf Date: 

Shane Walters! 'JUL 022013 
OMC Manager 

Distribution: Consumer Services Unit/ Prosecution Services Unit 
Pagel 

C- 

4 / 



DOH INVESTtGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 201 3-07373 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER PAGE 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits 3 
Interview/Statements: 
Interview/Statement of SAMUEL E. WAHBA, R.PH 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1) Case Summary, and supporting documents 4-68 

2) Subject Notification Letter, dated June 27, 2013 69-70 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-07373 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF RECORDS 

EXHIBIT I contains documentatiàn received from CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT in the form of a 
press release by TBO.COM-THE TAMPA TRIBUNE, alleging that WAHBAI agreed to enter a 
plea of guilty with conspiracy to commit various offenses against the United States, including: 
Health care fraud, False statements to a Federal agency, False claims for Payment to Federal 
Health Care Programs, and concealment and Failure to disclose Exclusion from Federal Health 
Care Programs in connection with claims for Payment, in violation of 18 U.S.C. s371. Further 
review of licensure documentation revealed that WAHBA obtained licensure through fraud and 
failed to report exclusion from Medicaid/Medicare. (Ex. #1, Case Summary, and attachments). 

EXHIBIT 2 is a copy of Subject Notification Letter, dated June 27, 2013. 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH/CONSUMER SERVICES UNIT— : 
No additional information has been received by Investigator HAIRSTON subsequent to the 
beginning of this investigation. 

INTERVIEW/STATEMENT SAMUEL E. WAHBA, . 
Address of Record (for Subject): 

4465 LAVENDER DRIVE 
PALM HARBOR, FL 34685 
HOME PRONE: (727) 787-6382 

SAMUEL E. WAHBA has not submitted a written response to the letter dated June 27, 2013, 
which served as notification of the allegation that he has been convicted or found guilty of a crime. 
If a response is received by Investigator HAIRSTON, all information will be forwarded to 
Prosecution Services Unit. 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve The health 

of all people in Florida Through 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
- Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

age 
Ied Pea 

Return Receipj roe o Required) 

Restricted DelIvery 
i 

(Endorsorneju Roqul, 

COj 
Total Poata l E. Wahba PS 4465 Lavender Drive Palm Harbor, FL 34685 

201307373ha 132 

THIS SECTION 

• Complete tems 1 • 2, and 3. Also complete 
Item 4 if Restricted Delivery Is desired. • Print your name and address on the reverse 
so that we can return the card to you. • jttach this card to the back of the mailpiece, 

on the front if space permits. 

Addressed : 
CONFIDENTIAL l E. Wabba PS 
4465 Lavender Drive 
Palm Harbor, FL 34685 
201307373 ha 132 

2. Article Number 
TtansferfromseMcefabeo 7012 1640 0001 7194 1273 

Florida Depa ?Sfcrrn 3811, February 2004 DomestIc Return 
Division of Medical Quality AssuranceS Bureau oF 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-75 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3275 
PHONE: (850) 245-4339' FAX (850) 488-0796 

HEALTH 

U.S. Postal Servjceiu 
CERTIFIED , RECOPT (Domestic Mail Only; No insurance Coverage Provided) 

m 
N j 
a- 

N 

C 
C 
C 
C 

C N 

Poslmaj* 
Here 

delivery address dIfferent from iteni 1? as 
If YES, enter delivery address below: 0 No 

CERTIFIED/RESTRICTED DELIVERY 
ADDRESSER ONLY 

3. uCe Type 
fl Certified Mall 
o 
O Insured Mall 

o Express Mall 
O Return Receipt for Merthejidise 
O , / 

4. Restricted Delivery? (Ezta Fee) 

• iealth.com 
10595 

REPORT FACEBOOK:FLDeparUrentofHealth 

a 2 VOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida Through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201315021 

1ST CHOICE PHARMACY, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: 1ST CHOICE PHARMACY 
41 E COMMERCIAL BLVD 
FT LAUDERDALE, FL 33334 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive 

7 BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofl-lealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTtJBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To 1 promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, & community efforts, 

Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. 1st Choice Pharmacy 

DOH Case Number 2013-15021 

DATE: December 4, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: 1st Choice Pharmacy 
Subject's Address of 41 E Commercial Blvd 
Record: Ft Lauderdale, FL 33334 

Enforcement Address: 41 E Commercial Blvd 
Ft Lauderdale, FL 33334 

Subject's License No: 24233 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 16958 

Initial Licensure Date: 9/3/2009 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Waived Probable Cause 

Prior Discipline: None 
Probable Cause Panel: Waived Probable Cause 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: DOH/ISU Ft. Lauderdale 

Florida Department of Health lorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Proseollion Services Unit TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65• Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEEOOICFLDeparthientofl-tealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: FAX 850)245-4684 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License 

Voluntary Relinquishment (filed) 

Notification Letter 
Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru S 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of The General Counsel • Prosewflon Services Unit TW1TFER:HealThyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOKFLOeparthientofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 YOtJTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: )245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-15021 

st Choice Pharmacy, 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER BASED UPON 
A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. On or about October 1, 2013, a Complaint was filed with the 

Department of Health, alleging that Respondent violated provisions of 

Chapter 465 and/or Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of License. 



3. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima facie case, regarding the viplations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

enter a Final Order accepting the terms of the Voluntary Relinquishment of 

License. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8172 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: Matthew.Witters@flhealth.gov 





FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

STATE OF FLORIDA CLERK Z 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DATE f/. 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-15021 

ST CHOICE PHARMACY, 

Respondent. 

________________I 

VOLUNTARY RELXNOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, Choice Pharmacy, license number PH 24233, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes Its pharmacy permit in the State of Florida 

and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this 

cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be 

construed as action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for a pharmacy permit in 

• the State of Florida. 

1 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease operating a pharmacy 

in the state of Florida immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from operating a 

pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 

confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of the 

Department of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become 

public record and remain public record and that information is immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

2 



otherwise challenge or contest the vahdity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 

attorney's fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent 

agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other 

related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or 

any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution 

of these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

• accepted by the Board. 

DATED this 7C day of . 
REPRESENTATiVE FOR 

CHOICE PHARMACY 
CASE NO. 20 13-15021 

- 3 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OFT2rn 

Before me, personally appeared 

__________________________ 

whose identity is known to me by t b 
J . (type 

of identification) and who, under oath, acknciwledges that his/her signature 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 
2013. 

IS f NOTARY 
t 

J IcS6 o Isay it Vsesioe 

MS' lIsblurr'!xpiI 

4 



I 
I 

Governor To protect, promote & improve the health 
I I 

of all people in Flodda through integrated 
i FFofidá John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state, county & community efforts. 

H EALTH 
I 

State General & Secretary 

December 16, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Attn: Allen Diamond st Choice Pharmacy 
41 E. Commercial Boulevard 
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33334 

Re: DOH vs. Choice Pharmacy 
00K Case Number 2013-15021 

Dear jSt Choice Pharmacy: 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by signing 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form, you agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1 )(f), Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State of Florida; and 
• Voluntarily relinquishing the Pharmacy's license may have an effect on Pharmacy licenses 

that you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understand, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245- 
4444, ext. 8172. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
will take up your request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting scheduled for 
February 5, 2013 in Orlando, Florida 32804. You are not required to attend the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Mht2Tters 
Assistant General Counsel 

MGW/crl 

Florida Department of Health 
www.FlorldasHealth.com Office of the General Counsel • Proseajflon Services Unit 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 lealth Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 
YOUTIJBE: fldoh PHONE: 850(245-4444 ' F4J( 850i'245-468X 



r - 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Fort Lauderdale Date of Case:_9/23/2013 Case Number: PH 2013-15021 

Subject: 
5T CHOICE PHARMACY 
41 East Commercial Blvd 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33334 
(954) 332-7885 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH/FORT LAUDERDALE ISU 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2205 24233 Pharmacy Pharmacy 11/22/2013 

Period of Investigation: 

10/9/2013 - 11/22/2013 

Type of Report: 

FINAL 
Alleged Violation: SS 465.016 Disciplinary actions (1) The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary action, as specified 
in s. 456.072(2): (r) Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, 465.023 Pharmacy perrnittee; 
disciplinary action (1) The department or the board may revoke or suspend the pemiit of any pharmacy perrnittee... (c) Violated any of the 
requirements of this chapter or any of the rules of the Board of Pharnacy; of chapter 499, known as the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act 456.072 
Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement (1) The following acts shall constitute grounds for which the disciplinary actions specified in 
subsection (2) may be taken (k) Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee... (dd) Violating any provision of this 
chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, F.S.; Rules 64616-28.202, 64616-28.203, F.A.C.; Abandoned Pharmacy; 
Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation. 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon a complaint (Case Summary & Attachments, Exhibit #1) received from DOH/FORT 
LAUDERDALE ISU alleging on 9/4/13, an inspection was attempted at CHOICE PHARMACY (PH 24233) a Community permit 
pharmacy, located at 41 East Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33331. The pharmacy is located in the same building with 
South Florida Pain Management Clinic. The premise appeared vacant and it was confirmed that no one had been seen in the 
pharmacy for weeks. On 9/5/13, a second inspection was attempted and the inspector found the door locked; a call was made to the 
pharmacy and nq one answered. On 9/6/13 and 9/16/13, subsequent attempts were made. It appears that the pharmacy is faDing to 
maintain hours and may have been abandoned. 

CHOICE PHARMACY was notified of the investigation byletter dated 10/7/2013 (Exhibit #2), and was provided a copy 
of the initiating documents. (Exhibit #1). 

A check of Department of Health licensure computer records revealed sr CHOICE PHARMACY is a licensed Pharmacy 
since 9/3/2009 with a clear license. (Exhibit #3) 

No patients were identified thus patient notification is not required. 

CHOICE is not known to be represented by an attorney. 

On 11/19/2013 this Investigator met with owner DAVID CARPENTER. CARPENTER signed a Voluntary 
(Exhibit#5) 

Related Case(s): 2013-15019 & 2013-15018 fi' 
Investigator/Date: 11/22/2013 Approved By/Date: 11/22/2013 

cfrt39 
SHERRI MIMNAGH, 
Medical Malpractice Investigator LI-102 

. 

LUIS NIEVES. 
930 Service' 

Investigative Supervisor 2 7 

Distribution: HOJISU 4 
INV FORM 300 1 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-15021 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interviews/Statements: 

Interview of MARY CRANE, R.Ph., Senior Pharmacist, DOH/ISU (Witness) 3 

Interview of DAVID CARPENTER, Owner of CHOICE PHARMACY (Subject) 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and Attachments.. 5-8 

2. Copy of Subject Notification Laer dated 10/7/2013 9 

3. Copy of DON Licensure Verification for r CHOICE PHARMACY 10 

4. Return Solutions Invoice 11-18 

5. Voluntary Relinquishment 

EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 
456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

** THESE RECORDS ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES AND COPIES OF SAME 
ARE NOT MAINTAINED IN THE FT. LAUDERDALE INVESTIGATIVE OFFICE. 

INV FORM 300 7102 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-15021 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBiTS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

I 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary and attachments consisting of a statement from MARY CRANE, 
R.Ph/DOH Senior Pharmacist and a Community Pharmacy inspection form. 

CRANE'S statement reveals the following in part: CHOICE PHARMACY is located in the same 
building as SOUTH FLORIDA PAIN MANAGEMENT (PMC 228). CRANE spoke with receptionist of 
PMC228 who advised that she has not seen anyone in the pharmacy in a couple of weeks. Multiple 
attempts were made, 9/5/2013 @ 11:34 AM, 9/6/2013 © 4:30 PM and 9/19/2013 @ 12:25 AM. The 
posted hours for the pharmacy are 10: AM to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday. 

Exhibit #2 is the copy of Subject Notification Letter, dated 10/7/2013. 

Exhibit #3 is DON Licensure Verification for CHOICE PHARMACY that reveals CHOICE 
PHARMACY has been a licensed Pharmacy since 9/3/2009 with a clear license. CHOICE 
PHARMACY holds qualifications in Schedule II & III, Community Pharmacy. 

Exhibit #4 is a copy of Return Solutions Invoice which indicates that on 10/21/2013 Return 
Solutions picked up all CII — CV drugs from CHOICE PHARMACY. 

Exhibit #5 is the Voluntary Relinquishment signed by 151 CHOICE PHARMACY owner DAVID 
CARPENTER on 11/19/2013. 

INVESTIGATORS NOTE 

The original licenses were received by this Investigator and sent to CMU. 

INTERVIEW OF MARY CRANE, R.Ph., SENIOR PHARMACIST, DOH/ISU ) 
On 10/7/2013 this Investigator interviewed CRANE via telephone. CRANE stated she did not have 
additional information to add to the initial allegations. CRANE stated that this Investigator would 
have to contact the owner of the pharmacy becausethey appear to be closed. 

INV FORM 300 7/02 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASENUMBER: PH 2013-15021 

STATEMENT OF DAVID CARPENTER. OWNER OF CHOICE PHARMACY ) 
Residence: 
(954) 661-7580 

On 10/15/2013 this tgator spoke with CARPENTER via telephone call. CARPENTER stated he 
was currently out of town and would be back in approximately one month. CARPENTER stated that 
they pharmacy had not done any business in more than six months and was having all of the drugs 
picked up from CHOICE. CARPENTER stated he would sign the Voluntary Relinquishment and 
agreed to meet with this Investigator upon his return. 

On 11/19/2013 this Investigator and DEA Agent YAYLEENE CAI.ZADA met with CARPENTER and 
verified there were no drugs on the premises. CARPENTER signed the Voluntary Relinquishment and 
signed to surrender his DEA number. CARPENTER was in the process of removing all pharmacy signs 
from the premises. 

INV FORM 300 7/02 4 

j 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
- Governor To protect, prornote & ftnprove the lth 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the Nation 

October 7, 2013 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
1st Choice Pharmacy 
41 East Commercial Blvd. 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33334 Case Number: 2013-15021 

To Alan Diamond, PDM: 

We are currentiy investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This 
investigation was initiated after it was determined that you may have violated your Practice Act. 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or 
* call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to submit a 
response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days after the 
Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to confidentiality. 
Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general public. You may make 
a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when the investigation is 
complete. You may'submit an additional written response to the information in the investigative file within 20 
days of receipt. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be represented 
by an attomey. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this investigation because the 
circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect and promote the health of all residents and 
visitors in the state through organized state and community efforts, including cooperative agreements 
with counties. If you have any questions please call us at (954) 267-4533. In addition, if you have any 
concerns or suggestions about our complaint process, please fill-out our Customer Concerns or 
Suggestions form at . 

ifi 
Sincerely, 
Sherri L. Mimnagh, MMI 
Medical Quality Assurance Investigator 

Enclosure 

Florida Department of Health .com 
DMsbn of Quality Bureau of 

TWflTER:HealthyFLA 

EXH$Brr# a. 



zscalulealc rlataauvnc' Lm.,cIrnc I Imict riicuuiy " Irnululatlull rage I UI i 

License Verification 
Data As Of 10/7/2013 

1ST CHOICE PHARMACY 
UCENSE NUMBER: PH24233 

Profession 
PHARMACY 

License/Activity Status 
C LEA RJ 

Quilifications - 

Schedule I & III 
Community Pharmacy 

Doing Business As Name 
1ST CHOICE PHARMACY 

License Expiration Date License Original Issue Date 
2/28/2015 09/03/2009 

Discipline on File Public Complaint 
NO NO 

Address of Record 

41 E COMMERCIAL BLVD 
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33334 

The information on this page is a secure, primary source for license 
verification provided by The Florida Department of Health, Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance. This website is maintained by Division staff 
and is updated Immediately upon a change to our licensing and 
enforcement database. 

lU CONFIDENTIAL 

http:J/ww2.doh.state.fl.us/irm0Opraes/prasindiprintrepoaasp?Ljeld= 1695 8&ProINBR=... 10/7/2013 

EXHsgrr# 
10 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATEOF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-15021 

CHOICE PHARMACY, 

Respondent. 

___________________________________________________I 

VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, st Choice Pharmacy, license number PH 24233, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes its pharmacy permit in the State of Florida 

and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this 

cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be 

construed as action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for a pharmacy permit in 

the State of Florida. 

(fl CONFIDENTIAL 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 
1 

Case No. 2013-01125 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease operating a pharmacy 

in the state of Florida immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from operating a 

pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 

confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, investigative report of the 

Department of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become 

public record and remain public record and that information is immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Florida.Statutes. 

5. Upon the s acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 2 
Case No. 2013-01125 



otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 

attorney's fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent 

agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other 

related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or 

any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution 

of these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

accepted by the Board. 

• DATED this 7R day of %r , 2013. 

REPRESENTATIVE FOR 
ST CHOICE PHARMACY 
CASE NO. 2013-15021 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 3 
Case No. 2013-01125 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OFTPrr'r 

Before me, personally appeared 
whose identity is known to me by Ft h/ L (type 

signature of identification) and.who, under oath, ackno'wledges that his/her 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this I 'is-k day of 
2013. 

NOTARY 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 
Case No. 5 4 

SHERRI L MIMNAGH 
Commission # EE 188605 
Expires April 4,2016 

TM, Irny Psi hisgaice SS385.7019 



DATE 
. 

LICENSE 

PH 24233 % 
PHARMACY 

piet all requirements of • 
the state of Flonda 

Expiration Date FEBRUARY 28 2015 

1 CHOICE PHARMACY * 

A 

LICENSEE SIGNATURE 

s 

): iU 
$ 

$ 

/ 

d , RatloAppreved 

STATE OF FLORfo4 AC# a3 6 8 

0LV4$ION MEDICAL QUALITY 

L 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida thrnugh integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforth. 

General & Sec 

Vision: To be the HeaRhiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201315019 

1ST CHOICE PHARMACY, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: 1ST CHOICE PHARMACY 
41 E COMMERCIAL BLVD 
FT LAUDERDALE, FL 33334 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive uirector 
7/BOARD OF PHARMACY 
V Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HeatthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofl-lealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: Ildoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nabon 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board pf Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel (9 RE: Voluntary Relinquishment L 

SuBJECr: DOH v. 1st Choice Pharmacy 
DOH Case Number 2013-15019 

DATE: December 4, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2013 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: 1st Choice Pharmacy 
Subject's Address of 41 E Commercial Blvd 
Record: Ft Lauderdale, FL 33334 

Enforcement Address: 41 E Commercial Blvd 
Ft Lauderdale, FL 33334 

Subject's License No: 25895 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 18865 

Initial Licensure Date: 1/11/2012 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Waived Probable Cause 

Prior Discipline: None 
Probable Cause Panel: Waived Probable Cause 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: DOH/ISU Ft. Lauderdale 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel Services Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLOepartmentofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License 

Voluntary Relinquishment (filed) 
Notification Letter 

Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru S 

Florida Department of Health ldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel• Prosecution Services Unit ITFER:HealThyFLA 
4052 Ba!d Cypress Way, Bin C-65 TaUahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merthants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fidoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

I 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-15019 

st Choice Pharmacy, 

Respondent. 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER BASED UPON 
A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. On or about October 1, 2013, a Complaint was filed with the 

Department of Health, alleging that Respondent violated provisions of 

Chapter 465 and/or Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of License. 



3. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

enter a Final Order accepting the terms of the Voluntary Relinquishment of 

License. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8172 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: @flhealth.gov 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
day of foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this 

2013, to: Choice Pharmacy, Attn: Allen 
Diamond, 41 E. Commercial Boulevard, Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33334. 

Ma G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 



FILEb 
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DEPUTY CLEPJc iC ELarc 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, DATE 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-15019 

CHOICE PHARMACY, 

Respondent. 

______________________________________________________I 

VOLUNTARY RELINOIJISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, Choice !harmacy, license number PH 25895, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes its pharmacy permit in the State of Florida 

and states as follows: 

1. Respondents purpose - in executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this 

cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be 

construed as action against Respondent's license, pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(fl, Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for a pharmacy permit in 

the State of Florida. 

1. 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease operating a pharmacy 

s the state of Florida immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from operating a 

pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 

confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of the 

Department of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become 

public record and remain public record and that information is immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

2 



otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 

attorney's fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent 

agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other 

related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board; or 

any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution 

of these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

accepted by the Board. 

DATED day of 4 , 2013. 

FOR 
CHOICE PHARMACY 

CASE NO. 2013-15021 

3 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNT'( OF 

appeared 
whose identity is known to me by S. I L 
of identification) and who, under oath, ackno*ledges that his/her signature 
appears above 

2013. 

NOTARY LIC 

•1 

Before me, personally 

Sworn to and subscribed 

(type 

before me this 

S EARl L 

Tiva Tey F 

. 

$ 

My Commission Expires: 

day of 

4 



Rick Scott Mission: I 
- Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

state, 

i 

John H. MD, FACS 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

H EALTH I 

State Sumeon General&Secretaiy 

I 
December 16, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Attn: Allen Diamond 
st Choice Pharmacy 
41 E. Commercial Boulevard 
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33334 

Re: I vs. Choice Pharmacy 
DOH Case Number 201 1 5019 

Dear St Choice Pharmacy: 

We are in receipt of your executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by signing 
the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form, you agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy in the State of Florida; and 
• Voluntarily relinquishing the Pharmacy's license may have an effect on Pharmacy licenses 

that you may hold in other states., 

If this is not what you understand, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245- , ext. 8172. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
will take up your request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting scheduled for 
February 12, 2013 in Orlando, Florida 32804. You are not required to attend the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew 0. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel l 

Florida Department of Health www.FlortdasHeaith.com 
of the General Counsel 'Prosewlion Services t 

TWITrER:HealthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
FACEBOOK:FLOeparfrnentotHeallh Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh PHONE: 1245-4444 • FAX 850/245-466X 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE RE PORT 
Office: Fort Lauderdale Date of Case: 9/23/2013 Case Number: PH 2013-15019 

Subject: 
181 CHOICE PHARMACY 
41 East Commercial Blvd 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33334 
(954) 332-7885 

Source: 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH/FORT LAUDERDALE ISU 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2205 25895 Pharmacy Pharmacy 11/22/2013 

Period of Investigation: 

10/9/2013 - 11/22/2013 

Type of Report: 

FINAL 

Alleged Violation: 55465.016 Disciplinary actions (1) The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary action, as specified 
in s. (r) Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, 465.023 Pharmacy permittee; 
disciplinary action (1) The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee..: (c) Violated any of the 
requirements of this chapter or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy; of chapter 499, known as the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act"..., 456.072 
Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement (1) The following acts shall constitute grounds for which the disciplinary actions specified in 
subsection (2) may be taken (k) Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee... (dd) Violating any provision of this 
chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, F.S.; Rules 64B16-28.202, 64816-28.203, F.A.C.; Abandoned Pharmacy; 
Violate Statute/Rule of Board; Failure to perform legal obligation. 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon a complaint (Case Summary & Attachments, Exhibit #1) received from DOH/FORT 
LAUDERDALE ISU alleging on 9/4/13, an inspection was attempted at CHOICE PHARMACY (PH 25895) a special closed permit 
pharmacy, located at 41 East Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33331. The pharmacy is located in the same building with 
South Florida Pain Management Clinic. The premise appeared vacant and it was confirmed that no one had been seen in the 
pharmacy for weeks. On 9/5/13, a second inspection was attempted and the inspector found the door locked; a call was made to the 
pharmacy and no one answered. On 9/6/13 and 9/16/13, subsequent attempts were made. It appears that the pharmacy is failing to 
maintain hours and may have been abandoned. 

CHOICE PHARMACY was notified of the investigation by letter dated 10/7/2013 (Exhibit #2), and was provided a copy 
of the initiating documents. (Exhibit #1). 

A check of Department of Health licensure computer records revealed CHOICE PHARMACY is a licensed Pharmacy 
since 1/11/2012 with a clear license. (Exhibit #3) 

No patients were identified thus patient notification is not required. 

0 ) cHOICE is not known to be represented by an attorney. 

On 11/19/2013 this InVestigator met with owner DAVID 
(Exhibit #5) 

CARPENTER. CARPENTER signed a Voluntary RSinquiShment. 
IN) 

Related Case(s): 2013-15021 & 2013-15018 

Investigator/Date: 11/22/2013 W cS > 

SHERRI MIMNACH, 
Medical Malpractice Investigator 1-102 

O 

Receiveo 
flyoff4tiqetiv., 

. 

LUIS NIEVES, NOV 2 72013 
Investigative Supervisor 11-101 

Distribution: HOJISU OOH!MQA n 
INV FORM 300 02/08 1 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-15019 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interviews/Statements: 

Interview of MARY CRANE, R.Ph., Senior Pharmacist, DOH/ISU (Witness) 3 

Interview of DAVID CARPENTER, Owner of CHOICE PHARMACY (Subject) 4 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and Attachments 5-8 

2. Copy of Subject Notification Letter dated 10/7/2013 9 

3. Copy of DON Licensure Verification for CHOICE PHARMACY 10 

4. Return Solutions Invoice 11-18 

5. Voluntary Relinquishment 

EXHIBLTS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 
456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES. 

** THESE RECORDS ARE SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(10) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES AND COPIES OF SAME 
ARE NOT MAINTAINED IN THE FT. LAUDERDALE INVESTIGATIVE OFFICE. 

INV FORM 300 7/02 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-15019 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBiTS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary and attachments consisting of a statement from MARY CRANE, 
R.Ph/DOH Senior Pharmacist and a Community Pharmacy inspection form. 

CRANE'S statement reveals the following in part: CHOICE PHARMACY is located in the same 
building as SOUTH FLORIDA PAIN MANAGEMENT (PMC 228). CRANE spoke with receptionist of 
PMC22B who advised that she has not seen anyone in the pharmacy in a couple of weeks. Multiple 
attempts were made, 9/5/2013 @ 11:34 AM, 9/6/2013 @ 4:30 PM and 9/19/2013 © 12:25 AM. The 
posted hours for the pharmacy are 10: AM to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday. 

Exhibit #2 is the copy of SubjectNotification Letter, dated 10/7/2013. 

Exhibit #3 is DOH Ucensure Verification for CHOICE PHARMACY that reveals CHOICE 
PHARMACY has been a licensed Pharmacy since 1/11/2012 with a clear license. CHOICE 
PHARMACY holds qualifications as a Special Closed System. 

Exhibit #4 is a copy of Return Solutions Invoice which indicates that on 10/21/2013 Return 
Solutions picked Lip all CII — CV drugs from CHOICE PHARMACY. 

Exhibit #5 is the Voluntary Relinquishment signed by CHOICE PHARMACY owner DAVID 
CARPENTER on 11/19/2013. 

INVESTIGATORS NOTE 

The original licenses were received by this Investigator and sent to CMU. 

INTERVIEW OF MARY CRANE, R.Ph., SENIOR PHARMACIST, DOH/ISLJ ) 
On 10/7/2013 this Investigator interviewed CRANE via telephone. CRANE stated she did not have 
additional information to add to the initial allegations. CRANE stated that this Investigator would 
have to contact the owner of the pharmacy because they appear to be closed. 

INVFORM3007/02 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: PH 2013-15019 

STATEMENT OF DAVID CARPENTER. OWNER OF CHOICE PHARMACY ) 
Residence: 
(954) 661-7580 

On 10/15/2013 this Investigator spoke with CARPENTER via telephone call. CARPENTER stated he 
was currentiy out of town and would be back in approximately one month. CARPENTER stated that 
they pharmacy had not done any business in more than six months and was having all of the drugs 
picked up from CHOICE. CARPENTER stated he would sign the Voluntary Relinquishment and 
agreed to meet with this Investigator upon his return. 

On 11/19/2013 this Investigator and DEA Agent VAYLEENE CALZADA met with CARPENTER and 
verified there were no drugs on the premises. CARPENTER signed the Voluntary Relinquishment and 
signed to surrender his DEA number. CARPENTER was in the process of removing all pharmacy signs 
from the premises. 

INV FORM 300 /02 4 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
- Governor To protect prornote & improve the health -- - 

of all people in Floiida Through rntegrated 
John H. Annstrong, D, FACS state, & efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

October 7, 2013 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
1st Choice Pharmacy 
41 East Commercial Blvd. 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33334 Case Number 2013-15019 

To Alan Diamond, PDM: 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This 
investigation was initiated after it was determined that you may have violated your Practice Act. 

Within 20 days of receMng this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below or * call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to submit a response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days after the Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general public. You may make 
a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when the investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to the information in the investigative file within 20 days of receipt. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be represented by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this investigation because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect and promote the health of all residents and visitors in the state through organized state and community efforts, including cooperative agreements with counties. If you have any questions please call us at (954) 267-4533. In addition, if you have any concerns or suggestions about our complaint process, please fill-out our Customer Concerns or Suggestions form at 

Sincerely, 
rn Sherri L. Mimnagh, MMI W 

Medical Quality Assurance Investigator 

Enclosure 

Florida Department of Health 
DMsion of Quality Bureau of 

TWI11tR:HealthyFLA 

EXHIBIT# 



neajuicuic rracuLioiicr L1CCUSC nuaci tneuuiy uetaii nuuiusauun vispiay rage i or i 

License Verification 
Data As Of 10/7/2013 

1ST CHOICE PHARMACY 
UCENSE NUMBER: PH25895 

Profession 
PHARMACY 

License/Activity Status 

CLEARJ 

Qualifications 
Special Closed System 

Doing Business As Name 
1ST CHOICE PHARMACY 

License Expiration Date License Original Issue Date 
2/28/2015 01/11/2012 

Discipline on File Public Complaint 

NO NO 

Address of Record 

41 E COMMERCIAL BLVD 
FT LAUDERDALE, FL 33334 

The Information on this page is a secure, primary source for license 
verification provided by The Florida Department of Health, Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance. This website is maintained by Division staff 
and is updated immediately upon a change to our licensing and 
enforcement database. 

ID CONFIDENTIAL 

http://ww2.doh.state.fl.us/irm0Opraes/prasindi_printreport.asp?Ljcjd= 1 8865&ProfNBR=... 10/7/2013 

EXHJBrT#3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-15019 

isT CHOICE PHARMACY, 

Respondent. 
I 

VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, st Choice Pharmacy, license number PH 25895, 

hereby voluntarily relinquishes its pharmacy permit in the State of Florida 

and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose - in executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this 

cause. Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of 

Pharmacy (hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be 

construed as action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for a pharmacy permit in 

the State of Florida. 

In 

Department of Health V. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 
1 

Case No. 2013-01125 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease operating a pharmacy 

in the state of Florida immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from operating a 

pharmacy until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment is presented to 

the Board and the Board issues a written final order in this matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 

confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, the investigative report of the 

Department of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become 

public record and remain public record and that information is immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Florida Statutes. 

5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 2 
Case No. 2013-01125 



otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, each party shall bear its own 

attorney's fees and costs related to the prosecution or defense of this matter. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

Board's consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment. Respondent 

agrees that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other 

related materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or 

any of its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution 

of these proceedings if the terms of this Voluntary Relinquishment are not 

accepted by the Board. 

dayof / ,2013. 

FOR 
ST CHOICE PHARMACY 
CASE NO. 2013-15021 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 3 
Case No. 2013-01125 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF 

Before me, personally appeared Na,..JLct t 
whose identity is known to me by EL t 
of identification) and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature 
appears above 

SHERRI L. MIMNAGH 
Commission#EE 156605 
Expires Apill 4,2016 
BwadTWjTmyFS 

mmission Expires: 

Department of Health v. Las Mercedes Drug Store, Inc. 
Case No. 2013-01125 

4 

Sworn to and subscribed 
iAJOe.r , 2013. 

(type 

day before me this 

NOTARY LIC 

of 



- - 
Spodarclo.a Systomv DIVISION OF MEDLOAL QUALITY ASSURANCE 

I 

LICENSE NO. - 

requirements of 
dthe state of Flonda 

FEBRUARY 28, 2015 

ACY 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Missiom Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201313537 

LEYVA CORALIA PEREZ, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: LEYVA CORALIA PEREZ 
7750 Sw 19 STREET 
MIAMI, FL 33155 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 

present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 

Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

Executive 
(MOARD OF PHARMACY 

Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
thyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypross Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 artrnentOfHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: 

Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of all people in Flonda through integrated 
/ John H Armstrong, D, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 

HEALtH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201313537 

LEYVA CORALIA PEREZ, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: ARNALDOSURI 
10631 NORTH KENDALL DRIVE, STE 150 
MIAMI, FL 33176-1 559 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. The Respondent is not required to be 
present at this meeting. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & Conference Center, 1500 
Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Voluntary Relinquishment 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

ExecUtive Dir ctor / BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance• Bureau of HCPR ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLoeparlrnentofHealth 

PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOIJTIJBE: fldoh 



FTGYIUà 
HEALTH 

Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect promote & improve the health 
of all people in through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Leyva Coralia Perez, P.S.1. 

DOH Case Number 2013-13537 

DATE: December 16, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Leyva Coralia Perez, 1. 
Subject's Address of 7750 SW 19th Street 
Record: Miami, FL 33155 

Enforcement Address: 7750 SW 19th Street 
Miami, FL 33155 

Subject's License No: 21750 Rank: PSI 

Licensure File No: 9502 

Initial Licensure Date: 11/13/2006 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Waived Probable Cause 

Prior Discipline: None 
Probable Cause Panel: Waived Probable Cause 

Florida Department of Health ldasHoaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel ' Proseoadon Services Unft 1TTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartnientofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants RowS Suite 105 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 . FAX 8501245-4684 



Subject's Attorney: Arnaldo Sun, Esquire 

Suite 150 

10631 North Kendall Drive 

Miami, Florida 33176-1559 

Complainant/Address: DOH/CSU/Media 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment 
Voluntary Relinquishment — filed 
Attorney Notification Letter 
Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 4 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel • SeMces Unit TWI1TER:HeaIthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 h 
Express mail address: 2585 Merdiants Row - Suite 105 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 

PHONE: 8501245-4444 FAX 8501245-4684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-13537 

Leyva Coralia Perez, P.5.1., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER BASED UPON 
A VOLUNTARY RELINOUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. On or about August 26, 2013, a Complaint was filed with the 

Department of Health, alleging that Respondent violated provisions of 

Chapter 465 and/or Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

2. In lieu of undergoing further disciplinary proceedings, 

Respondent returned an executed Voluntary Relinquishment of License. 



3. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

enter a Final Order accepting the terms of the Voluntary Relinquishment of 

License. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

MattI4'w G. witters 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 091245 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8172 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: @flhealth.gov 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 
foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this ) day of ( , 2013, to: Coralia Leyva Perez, 7750 S.W. gth 

Street, Miami, Florida 33155. 

Assistant General Counsel 



FILED 
• .• . .: DEPARTMENT0F HEALTH 
OEPARTMENT OF HEALtIl. DEpUW CLERK 

ROARD OF PHARMAS 

flEPARTMENT OF 

v. 
., CASE 2013-13537 

CORALIA LEWA PEnEZ, SJ., 
Res péAdènt. 

- 

K N 

C OR RA LEIliA PEREZ, p Ne. 

21750, hereby volurithrily teiiuquishe.s Respondeit to a 

pharmacist intctn in Uie of orida and lb!Iàwth: 

1.. Réspo idetittc.,purpose in etutiflg.ffil$ Rnlinquishment 

is to avoid further administrative action with respect to Cause. 

Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy 

(hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed 

as disciplinary action against Respondent's license pursuant to 

456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reapply for licensure as a 

pharmacist intern in the State of Florida. 

1 

P9/10 EVd 1 3(3 



3. Respondent agrees to voluntarily tease practicing as a 

pharmacist intern upon this Voluntary 

Relinquishment., Respthdent further agrees to rSràiri from the practicing 

as a pharmacist n cintil such time as this Vdkihtary Relinquishment is 

presented b the Boatt and the Board Sues a ritten final order in this 

matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public 1 Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the; . statutory privilege of 

confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Ida Statutes, ahd ives a 

determination ' prObable cause, by the Ca Use Panel, or the 

Department when apptopriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Honda 

Statutes, reqardinq the complaint, the invSigatjve report of the 

Department of Health arid all other information Obtained pursuant to the 

Department's investitj*ion in the above-styled áthon. By signing this 

waiver; that the record camplafrit become 

public record and remain public record and that information is immediately 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10) Florida Statutes 

2 

BDt'd 231V2N09 r 30 NWflC Stcil'-%g—sgs 



5. Upon the Board's acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment, 

Respondent agrees to waive aD rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board icotorating this Voluntary , 
6. Petiboner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the Board's 

acceptance of this Voluntary Relinquishment,., each party shall bear its own 's fees and related to the prcsecutiort àr defense of this mattet. 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board th review and examine all 

investigative file rnatSäls concerning Respondeht In connection with the 

Board's consideration at this Voluntary Respondent agrees 

that consideration of this Voluntary Relinqurchrncnt and other related 

materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of 

its members, from further participation, consideration, or resolution of 

these ptoceedirigs if the Board does not accept the terms of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

3 

t'a/EO BENd ZB1CNDS 1' 11 I!' 



STATE OF 

COUNTY OF . 

of 
who acknowledges that her signature app ars 

to çr affirmed by me 

- jUJLfl - 
Type or Pdnt Notary 

4 l BBt'd Z31Va1'IDS F l NP'iflh 1J 

this day of year of 2013. a 
Coralia Leçva Perez, PaL 

Before 
identity 

me, pet conafly whose 
is tPL to me Or by,. produdng 

as identiuicat in and 

this day of 

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF 



- Rick Scott 
Mission: I 

I 
Governor 

To protect. promote & improve the health 1 I 

of all people in Florida through integrated i John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, & community efforts. 

I H EALTH I 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

December 17, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Arnaldo Sun, Esquire 
Suite 150 
10631 North Kendall Drive 
Miami, Florida 33176-1559 

Re: Coralia LiyvaPerez, PSI 
DOH Case -Nümbèr: 2013-1 3537 

Dear Mr. n: 
We are in receipt of your client's executed Voluntary Relinquishment form. As you are aware by 
signing the Voluntary Relinquishment of License form, your client agreed to the following: 

• the Voluntary Relinquishment would be considered disciplinary action against your license, 
pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes; 

• you would never reapply for licensure as a Pharmacist in the State of Florida; and 
• Voluntarily relinquishing the Pharmacist license may have an effect on Pharmacy licenses 

that you may hold in other states. 

If this is not what you understand, please contact me as soon as possible to discuss, at 850-245- 
4444 ext. 8172. Otherwise, this case will proceed as planned, and the Florida Board of Pharmacy 
will take up your request for Voluntary Relinquishment of License at their meeting scheduled for 
February 12, 2013 in Orlando, Florida. You are not required to attend the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew G. Witters 
Assistant General Counsel 

M GW/crl 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel • Proseaition Services Unit 

TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65' Tallahassee, FL 323g9-3265 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— 105 

YOUTUBE: fidoh 
PHONE: 850/2454444 • FAX 850/245-466X 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: MIAMI 
AREA XI 

Date of Case: 08/27/2013 Case Number: - 201 3-1 3537 

Subject: CORALIA LEYVA PEREZ I Source: DOH- MIAMI-ISU 
7750 SW th st I 

Miami, Florida 33155 I 

I 

Prefix: 2202 License 
I Profession: Pharmacist 

Board: Pharmacy I Report Date:11/12/2013 
I Intern I 

#:21 750 

Period of Investigation 08/27/2013-11/12/28/2013 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation:456.072(1 )(a)(k)(I)(m)(dd) F.S.; (pharmacy) 465.016(1 )(j)(r) F.S. 
Violation of law/rule; Failure to perform legal obligation; False/misleading representation; Filing a false report: Fraudulent 
representation; 
Synopsis This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a Complaint (Case Summary and Attachments Exhibit 1:) an 
Internally generated complaint states that Miamiherald.com reports that CORALIA PEREZ was arrested on charges of 
defrauding Medicaid of nearly $600,000. PEREZ is the owner of Patient Pharmacy & Infusion at 5321 W 
where she allegedly submitted fraudulent invoices to the Agency for Health Care Administration to make it the 
pharmacy had dispensed the correct amount of medications for which they had billed the Medicaid programs 

PEREZ was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 08/27/2013 (Exhibit #2) and was coj5y of 
the case summary and initiating documents (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that CORILIA PEREZ is currently licensed as a 
Intern. 

No patients were identified, thus patient notification are not required 

CORALIA PEREZ is not currently represented by an attorney. 

PEREZ has neither admitted or denied the allegations. 

Related Case(s): 

Investigator/Dat 

George MMI-209 

Approved By/Date: 

Edward Thompson, Investigative Manager Mi-204 

Distribution: HQ/ISU Page 1 

INV II 300, created 07/02 

Nov is 2013 

08/MQA 
HQ 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPC CASE NUMBER: 2013-13537 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLEOF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/RecordslDocuments 3 

IV. EXHIBITS 

EXHI BITS 

1. Case Summary and Initiating Documents 4-6 

2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 08/27/2013 7 

3. Copy of Arrest Report and Arrest Affidavit, dated 08121/2013 8-15 

4. Letter and original license from Pharmacy Technician dated 09/13/2013 16-17 

IHV FORN 300, Revised 02/08, created 01/02 

Page 2 



l INVESTIGATIVE REPC CASE NUMBER: 2013-13537 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1: Case Summary and Initiating Documents. 

Exhibit #2: Copy of Subject notification letter, dated 08/27/201 

Exhibit #3: Copy of Arrest Report and Arrest affidavit, dated 08/21/2013. 

Exhibit #4: Letter and original license which was surrendered by the Pharmacy technician on 09/13/2013. 

INVESTIGATOR'S NOTE 
On Tuesday, August 27, 2013, this investigator contacted the Miami field office of the Attorney General Medicaid 
Fraud Control Bureau and obtained a copy of both the ARREST REPORT & ARREST AFFIDAVIT.This 
investigator did leave a message at the contact phone number for COROLlA PEREZ and there was no return 
call. The arresting officer in this case was not available for interview at this time. Contact with the Miami-Dade 
Corrections Department has revealed that PEREZ has bonded out of the County Jail. Several visits were made 
to the residence of record of the subject, and multiple telephone calls were made as well, messages were 
provided and no responses were ever returned. On September 13, 2013, this investigator was the recipient of a 
letter which was signed from CORALIA LEYVA PEREZ which contained her original license and where she 
expressed that she had not worked in the pharmacy field since March 30, 2012 and had no further intentions of 
working in the pharmacy industry. 

INV FORM 300, Revised 02/08, Created 07/02 

Page 3 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


• Rick Scott Mission 
Governor 

To protect, promote & niprove the health 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H &L11—I 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

August 27, 2013 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
Coralia Perez 
7750 Sw st 
Miami FL 33155 

Case Number: 2013-13537 
Dear Ms. Perez: 

We are currently investigating a case received by the Department of Health. The allegation, if 
substantiated, would be a violation of (See Attachments). 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or 
* call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your resume and identify the address of your current employer, even 
if you chose not to submit a response. This information, your response (if one is provided) and 
any other information gathered during the investigation will be considered by the Probable Cause 
Panel when determining whether a formal administrative complaint should be filed in this mailer. 
Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 
days after the panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the 
general public. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this 
investigation because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all 
people in Florida through integrated state, county and community efforts. If you have any 
questions, please callus at (305) 470-5894. 

Sincerely, 

111 CONFIDENTIAL 

George Mulero, CFE 
Medical Malpractice investigator 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Quality Assurance • Bureau of Enforcement TWIUER:HeaIthyFLA 
8350 NW 5211 Terrace #400 Doral, ida FACEBOOK:FLDeparthientofl-leahh 
PHONE: (305) 470-5800 Fax (305) 499-2090 YOUTUBE: fldoh 

ES 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flonda through integrated John H. Aimstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Heaflhiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Matthew G. Witters, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Voluntary Relinquishment 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2011-12057 

DATE: December 4, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph. 
Subjects Address of 5859 NW 56th Court 
Record: Coral Springs, FL 33067-2730 

Enforcement Address: 5859 NW 56th Court 
Coral Springs, FL 33067-2730 

Subject's License No: 18577 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 8148 

Initial Licensure Date: 11/6/1980 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Section 456.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2010-2011) 

Prior Discipline: 4013, DOH-02-0032-S 
Probable Cause Panel: April 24, 2012 

Risch & Mullins 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

ComplainantlAddress: Department Of Health/Consumer Services Unit 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit TWITTER:HealthyFL.A 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 
Voluntary Relinquishment — filed 
Scrivener's Error for Voluntary Relinquishment 
Board Notification Letter 

Materials Previously 
Submitted to 04-03- 13 
Board as Settlement Memorandum to the Board 

Settlement Agreement 
Exhibit A — Administrative Complaint 

Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Cost Summary Report 
Defense Documents 
Prosecution Documents 
Supplemental Report dated 08-23-11 
Supplemental Report dated 08-10-11 
Supplemental Report dated 08-04-11 
PCP Memorandum 
Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1 thru 5 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHeafth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartcnentotHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Row - Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4684 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK 
DAfl DEC 0 2 2013 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - - 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPAI&TMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

V. CASE 2011-12057 

ALAN SIJSSMAN, R.Ph., 

Respondent. I 
VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENT OF LICENSE 

Respondent, JEFFEREY ALAN SIJSSMAN, R.Ph., license No, PS 

18577, hereby voluntarily relinquishes Respondent's license to practice as a 

registered pharmacist in the State of Florida and states as follows: 

1. Respondent's purpose in executing this Voluntary Relinquishment 

is to avoid further administrative action with respect to this cause. 

Respondent understands that acceptance by the Board of Pharmacy 

(hereinafter the Board) of this Voluntary Relinquishment shall be construed 

as disdpIii-rary action against Respondent's license pursuant to Section 

'156.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent agrees to never reappiy for licensure as a 

registered pharmacist in the State of Florida. 



3, Respondent agrees to voluntarily cease practicing as a 

registered pharmacist Immediately upon executing this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. Respondent further agrees to refrain from the practicing 

as a registered pharmacist until such time as this Voluntary Relinquishment 

is presented to the Board and Board issues a written final order in this 

matter. 

4. In order to expedite consideration and resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 
confidentiality of 456.073(10), FlorIda Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department when appitpriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), Florida 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, the ive report of the 

Department of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

Department's Investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become 

public record and remain public record and that Information IS immediately 

accessible to the , Section 456.073(10) Florida Statutes 

2 



5. Upon the Boards acceptance of this Voluntary 

Respondent agrees to waive all rights to seek judicial review of, or to 

otherwise challenge or contest the validity of, this Voluntary Relinquishment 

and of the Final Order of the Board Incorporating this Voluntary 

Relinuish in ent. 

6. Petitioner and Respondent hereby agree that upon the s 
acceptance of this Voluntary lnquishment, each party shall bear Its own 

attorneys fees and costs to the prosecution or defense of this matter, 

7. Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

Investigative file materials concerning Respondent in connection with the 

consideration of this Voiuntary Respondent agrees 

that consideration of this Voluntary Relinquishment and other related 

materials by the Board shall not prejudice or preclude the Board, or any of 
its mbers, from further , consideration, or resolutjoii of 
these proceedings if the Board does not accept the terms of this Voluntary 

Relinquishment. 

3 



DATED this 2i day of 0 __ year of 2013. 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

Sussman, R.Ph, 

Before me, 
personally known to me or by producing 

(type of Identincatlon) as Identification and who acknowledges that her signature appears above. Sworn tp or by Respondent before me this 

_____ 

Jar 2013 

whose 

day of 

Type or Print Notary 

4 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT 

OF CLERK 

OF HEALTH 2013 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE NO. 2011-12057 

JEFFREY ALAN SUSSMAN,R.Ph., 

RESPONDENT. 

_/ 
NOTICE OF SCRIVEN ER'S ERROR 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and flies this Notice of Scrivener's Error, and as 

grounds therefore states: 

1. On or about December 2, 2013, the Agency Clerk filed a 

voluntary relinquishment form for the Respondent. 

2. Due to a clerical error, the header of the filed voluntary 

relinquishment lists the Respondent's name as "JEFFERY ALAN SUSSMAN, 

R.Ph." 

3. The header of the voFuntary relinquishment should list the 

Respondent's name as "JEFFREY ALAN SUSSMAN, R.Ph." 



4. The voluntary relinquishment is changed to reflect the proper 

spelling of the Respondent's first name. 

5. The first paragraph on page one of the voluntary 

relinquishment form lists the Respondent's name as "JEFFERY ALAN 

SUSSMAN, R.Ph." 

6. The first paragraph on page one of the voluntary 

relinquishment form should list the Respondent's name as "JEFFREY ALAN 

SUSSMAN, R.Ph." 

7. The correction of this error is of no prejudice to Mr. Sussman 

and makes no substantive change to the voluntary relinquishment. 

8. This Notice shall take effect upon its filing with the Clerk of the 

Department. 

Department or Health v. Jeffrey Alan R,Ph, 2 
Case 2O11•12057 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner requests that the voluntary relinquishment 

filed against the License of Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph., to be amended to 

reflect these corrections as detailed above. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon and 
Secretary of Health 

MS-IéW G. Wftters 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0091245 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: mafthew.witters@flheafth.gov 

Departnient of Health v. Jeffrey Ajan Sussrnan, RPh. 
Case Numbers: 2011-12057 

A 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Notice of Scrivener's Error has been provided by U.S. mail this day of 

December, 2013, to Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph., at 5859 N.W. Court, 

Coral Springs, Florida 33067. 

MATTKEW G. rITERS 
Assistant General Counsel 

Departmental Health v. Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.PIi. 4 
Case Numbers: 2011-12057 





Fax May 292012 P005/018 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v CASE 

JEFFREY ALAN SUSSMAN, ., 
RESPONDENT. 

Sn-rLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section .57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaints, attached as Composite Exhibit A, in lieu of 

further administrative proceedings. 

H STIPULATED FACTS 

1. At all times material to this matter, Jeffrey Alan Sussman, 

R.Ph., was a licensed pharmacist in the state of Florida, having been issued 

license number , Respondent's mailing addreSs of record is 5859 

Northwest 56th Court, Coral Springs, Fiorjda 33067-2730. 

DORy. Jaey Alan BPS 
Case No. 2011-12057 



Fax May 29 2012 P006/018 

2. Respondent was charged by Administrative Complaint, flied by 

the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department :' 
2. Rethpoñdént admits that the allegations 'in the Administrative 

Complaints, if proven true, constitUte' violations of law and cause the 

Respondèht to,bi subject to disdpllne by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED , 
1. ApàSranceT Respondent, Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph., shall 

be present when 'this Settlement Agreement is presertéd to the Board and 

under oath shaIi.jns*er all quStions asked by the Board concerning this 

case and its disposition 

2. . The Board of Pharmacy shall Impose the total, 

administrative thst$ associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this, matter, in an Smount not to exceed TWO THOUSAND SEVEN 

HUNDRED DOLURS ($2,700.00). Total costs shall 'beissessed whenthe I v. Je&ey Aian RPIi 
',•.. 



Fax May29 2012 08:3Dam P001/018 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, BIn C76, Post Office. Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32314-6320, within three years from the date the Final Order is 

filed with the Department Clerk. 

3. Evaluation and - Respondent shall contact the 

Professional ResothteNetwork.(PRN), It tQ an evaluation, and comply 

with all treatment requirements Imposed by any cOntract with PRN. 

1 

- Respondent shall be placed on I year probation. 

ing the ':p.obadofl Respondent shall be subject to the 

following, cohdibons: 

a. Respondent shall not function as a:; prescription 

'department. manager in any Florida permitted pharmacy during 

the probation, 

b Respondent shall not work at or for more than 2 

• pharmacies: during each quarter of the probationary period, 

unless ltespbhdent. obtains prior written approval from the 

H:.. :BQard; 

DOH v. rey Alan 
CaseNo.2011-12057 . 



Fax May 292012 08;3Oaio P008/018 

c. During the period of Respondent's probation, the 

Department shalt conduct semi-annual aUdits of 5 randomly 

selected controlled substances at the Respondent's place of 

employment at Respondent's cost; 

ci. Respoclent shall submit written reports to the Compliance 

Officer for the Medical Quality Assurance/Comphance 

CoPipliance Officer, 4052 Bald Cyjress Way, 

Bin c-oi These reports shall include 

Respondent's license number, current address, and phone 

nurriber;' cPiñt address, and phone nüh% ber. of each 

pharmacy. lb. wtlch Respondent is engaged practice of . nies of all pharmadsts, interns 

pharmacy tethntcians, relief pharmacists, and prescription 

départmént"thanàgers working with Respondent: These reports 

shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months In 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer, 

e Respondent shall ensure that his employer submits 

written reports to the Compha'hce Officer for the Medical 

Quality Management Unit, Compliance 

DOHv, 
. 

Case No 2011-12057 



Fax May 292012 09;3Oam B 

Officer, 4052 BaLd Cypress Way, Bin C-O1, 32399-3251. These 

reports shall contain the name, address, license number, and 

phone number of each pharmacy intern, pharmacy technician, 

relief pharmacist, and prescription department manager 

working in the prescription ment where: Respondent 

practices, and provide a brief description of Respondent's 

Spa nsibllltIes, . and working schedule. These reports 

shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer, 

comply with . .a2y. 
: 

arid all 

recommendatipns.trom PRN; 

g Ttespbt\dent shall make a mandatory appearance before 

the Board of Pharmacy during his last year of iroSon; and 

It Respondent may petilion the Board of Pharmacy for early 

termination of probation after six months. ..: 

5 Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Flàrida. Statutes; the rules promuigSd pursuant thereto; 

or any other state'or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy 

Case No. 7 . .. 



Fox Hay 2012 08:SOaia P010/019 

6. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disciplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

7. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that tilt Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board ärtd. effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Ag ement Into its Final Order. 

8. Purøos& of - This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respdct this particular case In this re"gard, Respondent 

aüthorizês the B aid to review and examine all• investigative file materials 

concerning prior to, or in conjunctiOn 1 consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this SettlèrnehtAgreéhiont at the time it is presèntedth the Board and 

shall offer ha aviderice, testimony, argument that disputes or 

confravenes any. èt!pulated fact or conclusion of , Furthermore, should 

this SettlementAgreernent not be accepted by the IBGrd, it is agreed that 

y. Jeftey Alan 
Ca WOk 2011-12057•.. 



Fax 292012 0B:3Can P011/018 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolution of these proceedings. 

9. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated the Final Order will not preclude addition& 

proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth In the Administrative Complaint, 

10 Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek thiy attorneys fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding 

11 Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to furthef adnirnisErative procedure and in appeal and further review of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order - 

• 

12, Current - Respondent shaH keep current his/its 

mailing practice address with the of Pharmacy 

and the Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

DOH v Jethey Alan Susswaxi. Rh 
CaseNo. :T( 



01/11/2@13 11:02 954345b809 rEflEx OFFICE PAGE 12/12 
Of), 0 4V14 No. UUib P. !U/lb 

Compliance officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

wIthin 10 days of the changE. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a FInM Order 

approving and this Settlement Agreement In resolution o? tNs 

SIGNED this day qf Dec eruhol 2012. 

- . . . 
V 

V ' 

V 

. 
v, Ais 

( 
st ' 

Case 

.Befqre naily appeared 3eftrey R.PH., whole 

known by (type of 
I .h 

*he, anti, that hissignature 

appears above. to subscribed before me this ir day of 

'Public - ' 
My o o(,3e IL} 

MY GOMPNSSIOfl #a32828 
EXPIRES: obT 06, 2014 

, 



Fax May 29 2012 0O:3Dani P013/018 

APPROVED this 

____ 

day of 
3 

., 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD 
Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

• ltounsel 
Ra. Bar No. 0084752 
Rorida Depai-trnehtof. 
Office of the General Uni: 

• 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, florida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 
Facsimile: (850) 2454683 

• Emait: 

DON v. JeThzy Alan 
CascNo 2011-12057 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

V. 

)EFFREY ALAN SUSSMAN, RIPh.., 

RESPONDENT. 
/ 

CASE NO. 2011-12057 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, PeUtioner, Department of Health (Department), by and 

through its undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint 

before the Board of Pharmacy against Respondent, Jeffrey Alan Sussman, 

R.Ph., and in support thereof alleges: 

is the state 

pursuant to 

and Chapter 

Petitioner department charged with regulating the 

of pharmacy Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

rida Statutes; 465, Florida Statutes. 

At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

pharmacist within the state of Florida, having been issued license 

PS 18577. 

1. 

practice 

456, Ho 

2. 

licensed 

number 



3. Respondent's address of record is 5859 Northwest 56th Court, 

Coral Springs, Florida 33067-2730. 

4. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was employed as a pharmacist at CVS Pharmacy, store 

number 3652, located in Parkland,. Florida. 

5. CVS Pharmacy loss prevention staff conducted an internal 

investigation after noting inventory discrepancies that coordinated with 

Respondent's employment times. 

6. On or about July 22, 2011, Respondent signed a statement 

admitting to taking approximately one-thousand (1,000) Vicoprofen 

7.5/200 pills from the CVS pharmacy inventory without permission. 

7. Vicoprofen 7.5/200 pills contain a combination of hydrocodone 

and ibuprofen. 

8. According to Section 893.03(3), Florida Statutes, hydrocodone, 

in the dosages found in Vicoprofin is a Schedule III controlled substance 

that has a potential for abuse less than the substances in Schedules I and 

II and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United 

States. Abuse of the substance may lead to moderate or low physical 

dependence or high psychological dependence. 

DOH v. Je&ey Alan Sussman, R.Ph. 
Case No. 2011-12057 



9. Respondent did not have a prescription for Vicoprofen on file 

with 0/S pharmacy. 

10. Respondent did not have permission or authorization to take 

Vicoprofen from the stock at the CVS pharmacy for his own personal use. 

11. Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2010-2011), provides 

that compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any 

controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice 

of pharmacy, constitutes grounds for disciplinary action by the Board of 

Pharmacy. 

12. As set forth above, Respondent admitted to dispensing or 

distributing approximately one-thousand tablets of a controlled substance 

to himself from the stock of his employer without authorization or 

permission, which is not in the course of the professional practice of 

pharmacy. 

13. Based upon the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2010-2011), by compounding, dispensing, 

or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other 

than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

DOH v. Je&ey Alan Sussman, ltPh. 
Case No. 2011-12057 



permanent reyocation or suspension Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement Ofv Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of I 2012. 

STEVEN L. HARRIS, M.D., M.Sc. 
Intetim State Surgeon General 
Florida Department of Health 

NICHOLAS W. ROMANELLO 
General Counsel 
Florida Department of Health 

WM. FREEMAN MILLER 
Attorney Supervisor 
Prosecution Services Unit 

JO IT& 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0084752 

FILED Florida Department of Health 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH Office of the General Counsel 

CLERK Angel! Sanders 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
DATE APR 2 4 ZUIZ Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 

Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: john_truitt@doh.state.fl.us 

PCP: 

PCP Members: 

DOH v. Jeffley Alan Sussman, R.P1I, 

Case No. 2011-12057 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be conducted 
in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces .tecum issued on his or 
her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 

disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other disdpline imposed. 

DOH v. Jeffrey Alan Sussman, LPh. 
Case No. 2011-12057 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201112057 

Page 1 0? 1 

C & 

OOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 1/1 1/2013 

s Name: SUSSMAF,JEFFREY ALAN 

____________________ Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 

Cornpktint: [ o.ioIL ! 
Investigation: L5.50 1 
Legal: 

11 
[ 1j 

Compliance: o.oo 
[ 

L 

********** 
Total: 24.OOj S1,94L56j 

to Date: 
] J 

l 
fr'nor Amount: 

} ) 
$o.ool 

Total Costs to Date: I $1,941 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: DOH v. Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph. 
DOH Case Number 2011-12057 

MEMBERS: Lorena Risch, Chair and DeAnn Mullins, BPharm 

DATE OF PCP: April 24, 2012 AGENDA ITEM: A-3 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed 

the complete investigative report, recommendations of the Department, and any 

information submitted by the Subject, and being otherwise fully advised in the 
premises, the panel finds that: 

X Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.016(1)(i), Florida Statutes (2010-2011) 

____ 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

____ 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

____ 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

____ 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

Other 

Chair, Probable Date 
Board of Pharmacy 



STATE OF Ft.ORILA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: Fort Lauderdale Date of Complaint: 07/28/2011 Complaint Number: PS 2011-12057 

Subject: JEFFREY ALAN SUSSMAN, R.PH. 
5859 NW th 
Coral Springs, FL 33067 
(954) 288-8960 

Source: DOH/MQA/CONStJMER SERVICES UNIT 

Prefix: PS License #:18577 Profession: 2201 Board: Board of Report Date: 
Pharmacist Pharmacy 08/04/2011 

Period of Investigation: 07/29/2011 thru 08/04/2011 I Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: F.S. 456.072(1)(b)(m)(z) Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of a profession or 
employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a profession. Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by 
reason of illness or use of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition. F.S. 
465.016(1)(d)2.3.(e)(rn)(r), Being unfit or incompetent to practice pharmacy by reason of: t.Habitual intoxication, 2. The misuse or abuse of any 
medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in chapter 893, 3. Any abnormal physical or mental condition which threatens the safety of 
persons to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs, or medical supplies or for whom she or he might manufacture, prepare, or 
package, or supervise the manufacturing, preparation, or packaging of, prescriptions, drugs, or medical supplies. Violating chapter 499; 21 u.s.c. ss, 
301-392.. Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of Illness, use of drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other 
type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition. A pharmacist affected under this paragraph shall at reasonable intervals be 
afforded an opportunity to demonstrate that she or he can resume the competent practice of pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety to her or his 
customers, Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto F.S.893.13(6)(a)(7)(a)9 It is unlawful for 
any person to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled substance unless such controlled substance was lawfully obtained from a 
practitioner or pursuant to a valid prescription or order of a practitioner while acting in the course of his or her professional practice or to be in actual 
or constructive possession of a controlled substance except as otherwise authorized by this chapter. Any person who violates this provision commits 
a felony of the third , It is unlawful for any person to acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or obtain, possession of a controlled substance 
by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, or subterfuge. 

Synopsis This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a Complaint (Case Summary and 
Attachments, Exhibit #1) from DOH/CSU stating that on 7/28/11 CVS Store #3652 (PH 20291) 
located at 7621 North State Road 7, land, FL suspended, pending termination of SUSSMAN for 
drug diversion. The Case Summary alleges that SUSSMAN may be incompetent to practice 
pharmacy. 

SUSSMAN was notified of the investigation via letter from Investigator TRACE WINGATE, dated July 
29, 2011 (Exhibit #2). The letter was hand-delivered by Investigator AUDREY PAUL-ROYALE on 
that date. 

A review of the DOH COMPAS licensure report reveals that SUSSMAN is licensed as a Pharrnaci& 
and has been such since 11/06/1980. The license is Clear and Active (Exhibit #3). H 

No patients were identified in this complaint. 

SLJSSMAN is not known to be represented by an attorney. 

As of this date, SUSSMAN has not responded to the allegations. 

Related complaint: None 

Investigator/Date: August 4, 2011 '1 ,"l ByjDate: August 4, 2011 1'., ir _JiArZt 
TRACY GLEN WINGATE, PATRICIkA. . 

Receivec 
Medical Malpractice Investigator U-97 Investigation Manager U-96 Services 

Distribution: HQ/ISU 
AUG r 007/02 . 

DO /. 



DOK INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COMPLAINT NUMBER: PS 2011-12057 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

III. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Records/Exhibits/Documents 3-4 

Interviews/Statements 

Interview of RICHARD MAZZONI, RPH (Source) 4 

Interview of STEPHANIE ROUSE (Witness) 4-5 

Interview of ADALBERT MARTINEZ, CFI (Witness) 5 

INVESTIGATOR'S NOTES 6 

IV. EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and attachments 7-8 
2. Copy of Notification Letter, dated 7/29/2011 9 

3. Copy of DOH Licensure Printout and website printouts 10-14 
4. Copy of Statement of SUSSMAN, signed and witnessed on 7/22/2011 15-18 
5. Copy of Promissory Note, signed by SUSSMAN on 7/22/2011 19-20 

FORM 300 7/02 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COMPLAINT NUMBER: PS 2011-12057 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF 

Exhibit #1 is the Case Summary and attachments, received via email from CSU July 29, 

2011, consisting of the following: 

Email string, originating with RICHARD MAZZONI, RPH, Director of Regulatory Compliance 
for CVS CAREMARK, to MARK 1TTEN on July 27, 2011, stating that SUSSMAN 518577) 
was suspended pending termination for diversion of +1- 1000 dosage units of hydrocodone 
products. MAZZONI stated that SUSSMAN was the Pharmacist-in-Charge lC) at Store 
3652 in Parkland, FL. MAZZONI stated that a written admission and video evidence is 

available upon request. 

Exhibit #2 is the subject letter of notification to SUSSMAN, dated July 29, 2011, from 
Investigator Wingate. 

Exhibit #3 is the COMPAS licensure printout, revealing SUSSMAN is licensed as a Pharmacist 
and has been such since November 6, 1980. The license is Clear and Active, but there has 
been discipline. 

Exhibit #4 is a copy of the statement written and signed by SUSSMAN during the Loss 

Prevention investigation of July 22, 2011. 

Review of the statement reveals that SUSSMAN stated: 

"I took handfuls of generic Vicoprofen adding up to around 10 bottles to handle a 

severe medical condition of psoriatic arthritis. The pain was unbearable on my 13 

hour days and I needed relief." 

SUSSMAN stated that he had been taking handfuls of generic Vicoprofen (7.5 mg 

Hydrocodone/ 200mg Ibuprofen) since December 2010, and had taken about 1000 doses 

without payment or authorization. 

SUSSMAN stated he was sorry and promised to pay CVS back the loss, and hoped that he 

could continue as lC of Store 3652. 

Exhibit #5 is a copy of a Promissory Note signed by SUSSMAN on July 22, 2011, promising 

to make restitution in the amount of $996.99 to CVS. 

INV FORM 300 7/02 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COMPLAINT NUMBER: PS 2011-12057 

INTEVIEWS/ STATEM ENTS 

INTERVIEW OF RICHARD MAZZONI, R.PH. ) 
National Director of Regulatory Compliance 
0/S Caremark 
Phoenix, AZ 
(401) 665-8321 
Cell (602) 501-9388 
Fax (401) 216-0064 

On August 2, 2011, Investigator WINGATE interviewed RICHARD MAZZONI by telephone. 
MAZZONI stated that as the National Director of Regulatory Compliance, he is responsible 
for reporting violations to the proper regulatory agencies, but that he is just the conduit of 
information and, is not directly involved in the investigation. MAZZONI stated that SUSSMAN 

was caught on surveillance video removing about 1036 tablets of hydrocodone from the 
pharmacy counter. MAZZONI stated that SUSSMAN later admitted, in writing, to removing 
the medication and to consuming it throughout the day. MAZZONI stated that there should 
be no problem making the surveillance video and the wdtten admission available to this 
Investigator, if this Investigator would send him an email request which would be forwarded 
to the proper personnel. MAZZONI also provided the name of STEPHANIE ROUSE, the 
Regional Manager, who would have more information on the details of the incident. 

INVESTIGATOR'S NOTE: 

According to ADALBERT MARTINEZ, the Regional Loss Prevention Manager for 0/S Region 

62, the video evidence mentioned by MAZZONI and again, by ROUSE, only showed 
SUSSMAN ordering the generic vicoprofen from the vendor and did not reveal any explicit 
activity that would have resulted in criminal prosecution (see Interview of ADALBERT 

MARTINEZ, CFI, below). 

INTERVIEW OF STEPHANIE ROUSE ) 
Regional Pharmacy Intern Coordinator, Region 62 
/S 
7284 Garden Road, Suite 117 
Riviera Beach, FL 33404 
(561) 841-5288 

On August 2, 2011, Investigator WINGATE conducted a phone interview with ROUSE. 

ROUSE stated she was a witness during the investigation of SUSSMAN for drug diversion. 
ROUSE stated the investigation began when the Loss Prevention Dept began noticed 
INV FORM 300 7/02 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COMPLAINT NUMBER: PS 2011-12057 

inventory discrepancies that coordinated with SUSSMAN's shifts at CVS Store 3652. ROUSE 

stated that Loss Prevention set up camera surveillance in the pharmacy and monitored it 
during SUSSMANJ's shifts. ROUSE stated that there is video footage of SUSSMAN taking 
handfuls of hydrocodone/ibuprofen and leaving the pharmacy for long periods of time during 
his shift. The video footage was reviewed on July 22, 2011 and SUSSMAN was brought in 

for questioning by Loss Prevention. ROUSE stated SUSSMAN at first denied the allegation 
that he was diverting but when confronted with the video evidence, he admitted to taking 
about ten pills per day for horrible back pain he was experiencing. ROUSE denied any 
complaint about SUSSMAN's behavior or performance prior to the incident, except that co- 
workers noted that he would leave the pharmacy often during his shift and be gone a little 
longer than average. ROUSE denied any incidents of misfdls or mistakes in filling 
prescriptions on the part of SUSSMAN. ROUSE stated SUSSMAN, after making a written 
admission and a promise to make restitution, was terminated from CVS employment on July 
26, 2011. 

In a follow-up email from ROUSE received by Investigator WINGATE on August 4, 2011, 
ROUSE stated that the Broward Sheriff's Office was notified of SUSSMAN's actions on July 
27, 2011 via a faxed initial notification form and was followed by an official DEA Form 106 
on August 3, 2011. ROUSE also stated that SUSSMAN was offered the CVS Employee 
Assistance Program to help him find a physician to treat his medical condition and with 
substance abuse counseling. ROUSE stated that SUSSMAN accepted help in finding a 

physician for his medical condition, but refused substance abuse counseling on the grounds 
that SUSSMAN stated that he did not have an addition problem. 

INTERVIEW OF ADALBERT MARTIN EL CFI ) 
Regional Loss Prevention Manager 
cvS 
3300 N 

th Terrace 
Hollywood, FL 33020 
(954) 649-2452 

On August 3, 2011, Investigator WINGATE conducted a phone interview with MARTINEZ. 

MARTINEZ stated that the investigation into SUSSMAN was begun when Loss Prevention 
noted an abnormally large amount of generic Vicoprofen being ordered at Store 3652. 
MARTINEZ stated that several orders for the medication, each requesting multiple bottles, 
had been placed to the vendor, while prescription logs indicated that only two (2) or three 
(3) patients were using that particular medication. MARTINEZ stated he reviewed video 
footage from the pharmacy and determined that SUSSMAN was the one placing the order for 
Vicoprofen. MARTINEZ stated he did not have any video footage of SUSSMAN actually 
taking handfuls of the medication or using the medication, or else he would have alerted law 
enforcement immediately. MARTINEZ stated he did not have SUSSMAN under any special 

surveillance and that the video footage is circumstantial at best, merely confirming that 
INV FORM 300 7/02 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COMPLAINT NUMBER: PS 2011-12057 

SUSSMAN was ordering the Vicoprofen. MARTINEZ stated that this evidence was just 
enough to justify conducting an interview with SUSSMAN. MARTINEZ stated that SUSSMAN 

at first denied the allegations, but later admitted to taking occasional handfuls of generic 
Vicoprofen for a severe back pain he was having. MARTINEZ stated when confronted with 
the fact that there were about 17 bottles unaccounted for in the inventory since December, 
SUSSMAN admitted that he didn't realize that he had been taking that much medication. 
MARTINEZ stated SUSSMAN admitted to self-medicating for pain, but had no valid reason 
why he wasn't getting prescriptions through a physician. MARTINEZ stated he took 
SUSSMAN's written statement, which was signed by SUSSMAN and witnessed by MARTINEZ 
and ROUSE. MARTINEZ stated SUSSMAN, except for this incident, had behaved in a very 
professional manner, and had been with CVS around ten (10) years. 

INVESTIGATOR'S NOTES: 

On July 29, 2011, Investigator WINGATE received the forwarded email documents related to 
this case and drafted a letter of notification to SUSSMAN (Exhibit #2). Investigator 
WINGATE contacted SUSSMAN to ensure that he was home. The letter was hand-delivered 
to SUSSMAN at his home around 4:30 p.m. by Investigator AUDREY PAUL-ROYALE. 

On August 1, 2011, the case file was received via FEDEX. Investigator WINGATE contacted 
MAZZONI, however MAZZONI was unable to take the call due to a meeting at the time and 
promised to call back. 

On August 2, 2011, Investigator WINGATE again contacted MAZZONI for the Interview. 
MAZZONI gave this Investigator contact information for ROUSE. Investigator WINGATE 
sent an email to MAZZONI requesting copies of the written admission and the surveillance 
video footage. Investigator WINGATE then contacted ROUSE for the interview. 

Also on August 2, 2011, Investigator WINGATE was contacted by SUSSMAN who stated he 
wanted to come in for an interview. Investigator WINGATE tried to get SUSSMAN to come 
in that afternoon, but SUSSMAN stated that he would have to get back to this Investigator. 
Investigator WINGATE also offered SUSSMAN to come in on August 3, 2011. SUSSMAN did 

not call back. 

On August 3, 2011, Investigator WINGATE received an email from MARTINEZ with attached 
documents consisting of copies of the written admission (Exhibit #4) and a promissory note 
signed by SUSSMAN (Exhibit #5). Investigator WINGATE contacted MARTINEZ by phone for 
the interview. 

Also on August 3, 2011, Investigator WINGATE contacted SUSSMAN by phone to try to again 
convince him to come in for an interview. SUSSMAN declined, stating he was going to hire 
an attorney to handle the matter. 

NV FORM 300 7/02 6 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307508 

SANFORD D DUCKMAN, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: SANFORD D DUCKMAN 
9320 WATER COURSE WAY 
BOYNTON BCH, FL 33437 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as 'timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

ird Executive DII 

OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER;HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399.3260 lth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flodda through John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & communty efforts. 

HEALTI-! State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nalion 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Jodi-Ann V. Johnson, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph. 

DOH Case Number 2013-07508 

DATE: December 3, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph. 

Subject's Address of 9320 Water Course Way 
Record: Boynton Bch, FL 33437 

Enforcement Address: 9320 Water Course Way 
Boynton Bch, FL 33437 

Subject's License No: 27319 Rank: PS 

Licensure File No: 16355 

Initial Licensure Date: 3/17/1992 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Count I: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S.(2012) 
Count : Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S.(2012) 
Count III: Section 465.072(1)(k), F.S.(2012) 
Count IV: Section 456.072(1)(k), F.S.(2012) 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause Panel: September 5, 2013 
Glass and Mesaros 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department of Health/Investigative Services 
Unit-Jupiter 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecition Services Unit 1WITTER:HeafthyfLA 
4052 Bald Cypress , Bin C-65• Tallahassee, FL 32399.1701 oepartmentolHealth 
Express mail address: 2565 Merchants Row— Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE:850/245-4444' FAX 850/245-4683 



Motion For Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material 
Fact for Final Order 
Administrative Complaint 
Motion to Assess Costs 

Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost by complaint 

Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Respondent's Document 
PCP Memo 
Final Investigative Report 

Exhibits 1-5 

Disciplinary Guidelines: Mm: $2,000 fine 
Max: revocation 

PRELIMINARY CASE : 
Respondent was the Prescription Department Manager (PDM) of Franako Pharmacy. On or about 

April 30, 2013, a Department inspector conducted an inspection of Franako Pharmacy. On or about 

April 30, 2013, the Department's inspector noted several deficiencies: 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-07508 

SANFORD D. DUCKMAN, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

__________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. Petitioner, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline Respondent's license to practice nursing, 

thereby affecting Respondent's substantial interests. 



2. On or about September 14, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent 

with the Administrative Complaint via certified mail, at 9320 Water Course 

Way, Boynton Beach, Florida 33437. By serving Respondent with the 

Administrative Complaint, provided Respondent written notice of its 

decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice as a 

Pharmacist. 

3. Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed' issues of material fact to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been .advised by way of this Motion, that a 

of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respecifully requests that the Board of 

Nursing, after allowing Respondent the opportunity to present oral and/or 

written evidence in mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter a Final 



Order imposing whatever discipline upon Respondent's license that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

I 
Respectfully Submitted, 

John 1-i. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

3 di-Ann V. Joh son 
A sistant Gene al Coun el 

OH Prosecutio ervi es Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress ay, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar #0073525 
(850) 245-1114 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facs!mjle 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy above 

and foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this 4 day of 

2013, to: Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph., 9320 

Watercourse Way, Boynton Beach, Florida 33437. 

7 \odi-Ann V. 3 

Ge eral C nsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

CASE NO. 2013-07508 
SANFORD D. DUCKMAN, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 
I 

ADMINISTRAUVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph., and in support thereof 

alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative int, 
Respondent was a licensed pharmacist within the State of Florida, having 

been issued license number PS 27319. 





COUNT ONE 

7. Petitioner realleges andincorporates paragraph one (1) through 

six (6), as if fully set forth herein. 

8. Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects a 

licensee to disciplinary action for failing to perform any statutory or legal 

obligation placed upon a licensee. 

9. Section 5.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), provides, in 

pertinent part, that the prescription department manager must ensure the 

permittee's compliance with all rules adopts under those chapters as they 

relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of 

prescription drugs. 

10. Rule 64B16-28.108j., Florida Administrative Code, provides, in 

pertinent part, that a sign in block letters not less than one inch in height 

stating the hours the prescription department is open each day shall be 

displayed either at the main entrance of the establishment or at or near the 

place where prescriptions are dispensed in a prominent place that is in 

clear and unobstructed view. 

ii.. As set forth above, Respondent, as the prescription department 

manager, failed to ensure the perrnittee's compliance with the rule 

I v. San(ord D. R.Ph. 
Case No. 2013-07508 
AC — RPh, inspection vioFatlons 



requiring the pharmacy hours to be posted, as required by Rule 64B16- 

28.1081, Florida Administrative Code. 

12. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 

465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to ensure a sign in block 

letters not less than one inch in height stating the hours the prescilption 

department is open each day was displayed either at the main entrance of 

the establishment or at or near the place where prescriptions are dispensed 

in a prominent place that is in clear and unobstructed view, as required by 

Rule 64816-28.1081, Florida Administrative Code. 

COUNT TWO 

13. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraph one (1) through 

six (6), as if fully set forth herein. 

14. Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects a 

licensee to disciplinary action for failing to perform any statutory or legal 

obligation placed upon a licensee. 

15. Section 5.022(llXa), Florida Statutes (2012), provides, in 

pertinent part, that the prescription department manager must ensure the 

permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they 

DOH v. Sanford 0. Duthnan, R.Ph. 
4 Case No. 2013-07508 

AC — RPh, violauons 



relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of 

prescription drugs. 

16. Rule 64B16-28.140(4), Florida Administrative Code, sets forth 

the requirements for maintaining a written record for each batch/sub-batch 

of a compounded product under the provisions of Rule 64B16-27.700, 

F.A.C. - 

17. As set forth above, Respondent, as the prescription department 

manageç failed to ensure the permittee's compliance with Rule 64B16- 

28.140(4), Florida Administrative Code, by failing to property maintain a 

written record of the compounded products when the records failed to note 

the lot numbers, the expiration dates, and the registered pharmacist's 

certification. 

18. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 

65.022(t1)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), by falling to ensure that the 

written record for each batch/sub-batch of a compounded product under 

Rule 64B16-27.700, F.A.C. included all the required information, as required 

by Rule 64B16-28.140(4), Florida Administrative Code. 

DOM v. Sanford D. Duthman, ItPh. 
5 Case No. 2013-07S08 

AC — RPh, inspection violations 



COUNT THREE 

19. Petitioner and incorporates paragraph one (1) through 

six (6), as if fully set forth herein. 

20. Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects a 

licensee to disciplinary action for failing to perform any statutory or legal 

obligation placed upon a licensee. 

21. Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), provides, in 

pertinent part, that the prescription department manager must ensure the 

permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they 

relate to the practice of the profession 9f pharmacy and the sale of 

prescription drugs. 

22. Rule 64B16-28.140(3)(d), Florida Administrative Code, provides 

that each individual pharmacist who dispenses or refills a prescription drug 

order shall verify that the data indicated on the daily hard-copy printout is 

correct, by dating and signing such document in the same manner as 

signing a check or legal document within seven days from the date of 

dispensing. 

23. As set forth above, Respondent, as the prescription department 

manager, failed to ensure the permittee's compliance with Rule 64816- 

28.140(3)(d), Florida Administrative Code, by failing to properly maintain a 
Doll v. Sanford 0. Duthman, tPrI. 

6 Cast No. 2013-07508 
AC - RPh, 



daily log when permittee's daily logs were missing the pharmacists' 

signatures. - 

24. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 

(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to ensure that each 

individual pharmacist who dispenses or refills a prescription drug order 

verify that the data indicated on the daily hard-copy printout is correct, by 

dating and signing such document in the same manner as signing a check 

or legal document within seven days from the date of dispensing, as 

required by Rule 64316-28.14o(3)(d), Florida Administrative Code. 

COUNT FOUR 

25. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraph one (1) through 

six (6), as if 

26. Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), subjects a 

licensee to disdplinary action for fafling to perform any statutory or legal 

obligation placed upon a licensee. 

27. Section 5.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), provides, in 

pertinent part, that the prescription department manager must ensure the 

permittee's compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they 

1-I v. sanrord 0. Oudcrnan, R.Ph. 
- 7 Case No. 2013-07508 

AC — RPh, inspection 



relate to the practice of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of 

prescription drugs. 

28. Rule 64B16-28.i.1O, Florida Administrative Code, states persons 

qualified to do so shall examine the stock of the prescription department of 

each pharmacy at a minimum interval of four months, and shall remove all 

deteriorated pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticais which bear upon the 

container an expiration date which date has been reached, and under no 

circumstances will pharmaceuticals or devices which bear upon the 

container an expiration date which has been reached be sold or dispensed 

to the public. 

29. As set forth above, Respondent, as the prescription department 

manager, failed to ensure the perrnittee's compliance with the rule 

requiring removal of deteriorated pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticals 

which bear upon the container an expiration date which has been reached 

from the stock, as required by Rule 64B16-28.11o, Florida Administrative 

Code.. 

30. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 

5.022(11)(a), Florida Statutes (2012), by failing to ensure that 

deteriorated pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticals which bear upon the 
DOll v. Sanford 0. Duthnan, R.Ph. 

U Case No. 2013-07508 
C — Rib, Inspecdon violations 

•0 



container an expiration date which date has been reached were removed 

f!om stock, as required by. Rule 64B16-28.11O, lbrida Administrative Code. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

day of , 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State rat and Secretary of Health 

VéThisha Foster 
Assistant General Counsel 

FILED DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 4052 Bald Way, Bin C-65 DEPUTY CLERK 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 CLERK . Bar # 0092743 
1 Telephone: (850) 245-4111 

Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

/VF 
PCP: September 5, 2013 
PCP Members: Glass and Mesaros 

Dolly. Sanforti 0. Duckzran, R.Pti. 
9 Case No. 2013.07508 

AC — RPIi, inspecbon violations 



• 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 
Respondent has the right to request a .hearinó S be conducted 

in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57,: Florida Statutes, to 
be represented by counsel or other qualified representative, to 
present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses 
and to have subpoena and subpoena duces tecurn issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Sanford ). Otidunan, R.Ptt. 
10 Case No. - 

AC — RPh, nspethori violations 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-07508 

SANFORD D. DUCKMAN, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

____________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION 

COMES NOW, the Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, and moves the BOard of Pharmacy for the entry 

of a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner 

states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 



In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 
after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 
discipline imposed through final order, or 
citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, for a 

violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to 
the investiaation and prosecution include, but 
are_not limited to, salaries and benefits of 
personnel. costs related to the time spent by 
the attorney and other personnel working on 
the case, and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board. or 
the department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written objections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has 

resulted in costs in the total amount of $560.86, based on the 

following itemized statement of costs: 

[ Cost to D ate 

___________ Hours Costs 

fComplaint: 
1 1 1.10! j . $60.391 

Investigation: 
1 

1 1 
Legal: 

. 1 . 1 
0.00 

Sub Total: 7.20 $560.86 

Expenses to 
Date: 

$000 
. 

Prior Amount: 
. I 

I 
Total Costi to 

. 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $284.32 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of 

the costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests 

that the Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based 

upon its consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any 

timely-filed written objections. 

5; Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $284.32 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any 

other discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the 

Board of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $284.32. 

3 



DATED this 

____________ 

day of 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

3 di-Ann V. Jo son 
sistant Gen ral C nsel 

OH Prosecu on S ices Unit 
4052 Bald Cypr. Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
lprida Bar #0073525 
(850) 245-4444 telephone 
(850) 245-4683 facsimile 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 

of 2013, to: Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph., 

9320 Watercourse Way, Boynton Beach, Florida 33437. 

3 di-Ann V. Jo son 
A sistant Gen al Co nsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME; the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 201 3-07508 (Department of Health v. SANFORD D. 
DUCKMAN, R.PH.) are FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY DOLLARS AND 
EIGHTY-SIX CENTS ($560.86). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 201 3-07508(Department of Health v. 
SANFORD D. DUCKMAN, R.PH.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2013-07508 
(Department of Health v. SANFORD D. DUCKMAN, R.PH.) are 
detailed in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense 
Report and receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

I of2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed 

Notary Signature 

before me 
know 

this______ 
n to me. 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 

dayof 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201307508 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: DUCKMAN, SANFORD D 

Cost to Date 

Hours 
( 

Costs 

Complaint: E 1 
[ 1 5223.93 

Legal: 
[ 

2.601 $276.54! 

Compliance: 0.00 
[ 1 

I H 
Total: 

1 

) $560.86! 

(Expenses to Date: 
) 

1 
Prior Amount: H L 01 
Total Costs to Date: 

] 1 
( 

EXHIBIT 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.f1.us/IRMOOTIMETRAK/CSDETL.ASP 10/7/2013 



D
Iv

is
io

n 
of

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

$5
60

.8
6 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 

M
Q

A
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
10

/0
7/

20
 1

3 

C
 O

N
 lO

E
 N

T
 J

A
L

 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t b

y 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

13
07

50
8 

Pa
ge

 I
 
of

 2 

St
af

f C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 H

ou
rs

 
St

af
f R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

N
SU

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
iC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

I 
H

A
23

 
0.

50
 

$5
4.

90
 

H
A

 1
15

 
0.

60
 

$5
4.

90
 

$2
7.

45
 

$3
2.

94
 

05
/1

0/
20

 1
3 

05
/1

3/
20

13
 

78
 2 

IN
IT

IA
L

 R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S 
O

F 
C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
O

FF
IC

E
 S

U
PE

R
V

IS
O

R
Y

 D
U

T
IE

S 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

1.
10

 
$6

03
9 

II
N

V
E

ST
IC

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 
U

N
iT

 
j 

W
1l

08
 

1.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 
O

8 
1.

30
 

$6
3.

98
 

W
11

08
 

1.
10

 
$6

3.
98

 

$7
0.

38
 

$8
3.

17
 

$7
0.

38
 

05
/1

7/
20

13
 

06
/1

8/
20

13
 

06
/2

0/
20

13
 

4 76
 

76
 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

ST
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
R

.E
PO

R
T

 P
R

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
 

R
.E

PO
R

T
 P

R
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

3.
50

 
S2

23
.9

3 
. 

IP
R

O
SE

C
U

T
IO

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

U
N

IT
 

j 

H
L

L
92

A
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
07

/0
8/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

SE
FI

L
E

 
H

L
L

92
A

 
0.

90
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$9
5.

72
 

07
/0

9/
20

13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
H

L
L

92
A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

07
/0

9/
20

13
 

29
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

l-
IL

L
92

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
07

/0
9/

20
13

 
28

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

H
L

L
92

A
 

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

09
/0

5/
20

13
 

68
 

SI
G

N
IN

G
 C

L
O

SI
N

G
 O

R
D

E
R

S,
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
S 

A
N

D
 R

E
A

SO
N

A
B

 
H

L
L

92
A

 
0.

70
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$7
4.

45
 

09
/1

0/
20

13
 

79
 

ST
IP

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 
H

L
L

79
A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

09
/3

0/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

2.
60

 
$2

76
.5

4 



D
M

si
on

oI
 

C
0N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L*
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
13

07
50

8 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
10

/0
7/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 2

 

St
af

f 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 B
oo

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 

--
 F

O
R

 IN
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
rn

iz
ed

co
st

 



D
lv

&
io

n 
ci

 
**

* 
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L 
**

* 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

I\4
 \ 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

10
/0

7/
20

 1
3 

P
ag

e 
I 
of

! 

- 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 

- F
O

R
 iN

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Floilda through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH 
John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

Sanford D. Duckman, R.PH. 
9320 Watercourse Way 
Boynton Beach, Florida 33437 

Re: DOH vs. Sanford D. Duckman, R.PH 
DOH Case Number 2013-07508 

Dear Mr. Duckman: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed. jssues of 
material fact executed by you on September 29, 2013 concerning the above referenced case. 
This means that the facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an 
important distinction because, by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this 
case or any disciplinary case. Since you are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of 
material fact, you are not admitting the facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you 
are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit presentation to legal argument, if any, and to 
matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for February 5, 2014, at the Doubletree by Hilton, 60 S. Ivanhoe 
Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32804. Please be advised your case will be set at the convenience 
of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the date and 
time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank you 
please feel 

JAVJ/pb 

for your attention and cooperation 
free to contact this office. 

in this matter. Should you have any questions, 

Sincerely, 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel ProseajOon Services Unit 

4052 Bald Cypress Way! Bin C.65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: 8501245-4444. FAX 8501245-4683 

www.Fiorldasllealth.com 
TWITFER:HealthyFLA lealth 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Rick Scott 
Govemor 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nathn 

December 4, 2013 

'di-Ann V. Johns 
General 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


S'4.LtJ ,3%Lc4jzab pcMxt. 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CASE # 2013-07508 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

I AM A 72 YEAR OLD PHARMACIST, WHO HAS BEEN LICENSED FOR OVER 47 YEARS WITH NO 

VIOLATION. I AM LIVING ON SOCIAL SECURITY AND CAN'T AFFORD TO RETAIN AN ATTORNEY 

OR ATTEND THE V1OLAIION MEETING. I WAS THE PHARMACY MANAGER AT FRANAKO 

PHARMACY WHEN THE STORE WAS INSPECTED. I VISITED THE STORE AT LEAST 1-2 TIMES A 

WEEK, CHECKING FOR VIOLATIONS, 

THE VIOLATIONS WERE: 

1. PROPER PHARMACY HOURS SIGN NOT VISIBLE 

I MADE SURE THE PHARMACY HOURS SIGN WAS VISIBLE...ONE OF THE VITAMIN 

VENDORS HAD POSTTHEIR SIGN AND IT OBSURE OUR SIGN...THE SIGN WAS IMMEDIATELY 

REMOVED AND PHARMACY SIGN IS NOW EULLY VISIBLE. ALL VENDORS HAVE BEEN ADVISED 

EDUCATED ON THE IMPORTANCE OF ThE PHARMACY SIGN...PHARMACIST MUST 

ENDORSE ALL DISPLAYS OF SIGNS BY VENDORS. 

2. EXPIRED MEDICATION FOUND IN ACTIVE STOCK 

THE PHARMACY HAS COLOR CODING SYSTEM TO IDENTIFY SOON —TO-EXPIRED 

MEDICATiON ON THE SHELVES, THERE APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN SOME MISCOMMUNICATION 

AMONG THE STAFF. ALL EXPIRED MEDICATION WAS TO BE PULLED FROM THE SHELVES AND 

ALL SOON-TO-EXPIRED WAS TO BE CQLOR CODED. INSTEAD ALL THE SOON TO 

EXPIRE AND EXPIRED WERE COLOR CODED BUT NOT TAKP4 

OF THE INSPECTION OF APRIL3Q. 2013. 

REVISED TQ TAG AND INCWDE.MEDIcATION 4 MONTHS EXPIRATIONS ALL EXPIRED 

MEDICATIOM HAVE BEEN REMOVED FROM THE ACTIVE STOCK AND SCHEDULED FOR 

SHIPMENT THROUGH THIRD EARTY VENDOR. 

3. CERTIFIED DAILY LOG OR PRINT OUT NOT MAINTAINED 

EVERY PHARMACIST WORKING AT FRANAKO PHARMpCY IS REQUIRED TO SIGN iNTO 

THE PHARMACY OPERATING SYSTEM ON A DAILY BASIS. THE PROCESS ALLOWS THE SYSTEM TO 

CAPTURE AND A COMPREHENSIVE RECORD OF ALL PHARMACISTS. A REPORT 

CAN BE GENERATED FOR ANY POINT OF TIME FOR THE MORE 

PROMPTS HAVE BEEN OUR OPEN/CLOSING PROCE9L)RE TO REMIND THE STAFF TO 

SIGN IJT OF THE DAILY PG- 



SU'4L09)LOO 

4. COMPOUNDING RECORDS NO PROPERLY MAINTAINED 

THE PHARMACY MAINTAINS A COMPOUNDING LOG FOR ALL COMPOUNDED 

PRESCRIPTIONS. A COUPLE OF SIGNATURES WERE MISSING FROM THE PREVIOUS LOG, 

ALL COMPOUNDED PRESCRIPTIONS HAVE BEEN TRANSCRIBED AND ALL SIGNATURES 

ARE IN PLACE. A NEW MODIFIED LOG IS NOW BEING USED. 

I WOIJW APPRECIATE YOUR PROMPT ATTENTION TO THIS . 
THANK YOU FOR YOU CO-OPERATION 

• SANFORD DUCKMAN 

P527319 FLORIDA LICENSE 



TO: 

FROM: 

MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

I 

RE: 

MEMBERS: 

Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph. (VF) 
Case Number: 2013-07508 

Cynthn-€riffin, PhannD and Jeffrey Mesaros 

DATE OF PCP: September 5, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-7 

This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 465.022(11)(a), Florida 
Statutes (2012); 

Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012) by violating Section 465.022(l1)(a),F!orida 
Statutes (2012), by. failing to ensure that the written record f6r each batch/sub-batch of a 

compounded product under Rule 64B16.27.700, Florida Administrative Code, included all 
the information, as required by Rule 64B16.28.140(4), Florida Administrative 
Code; 

Section 465.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Section 
Statutes (2012); 

Section 456.072(1)(k), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Sectioin 
Statutes (2012); 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

465.022(1 1)(a), Florida 

465.022(11)(a), Florida 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 
other 

Panel 

r ) Q 
Date 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
INE CHANGE LOG NEW 0 NOT OPERATING CHANGE OWNER 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY - CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
25600 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
611512012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

SANFORDDDUCKMAN STREETADORESS 
4D0 SOUTH DIXIE HW/ SUITE 17 

TELEPHONE# EXT. 
561-588-0707 

CITY COUNTY 
LAKE WORTH 60 

STATE/ZIP 
33460 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
27319 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN # Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. Kwarne Kyermaten-Afrani P535409 
Open 8 8 '8 8 on cal on Cal 8 2. Bruce Greenbarg P532836 
Close 8 8 8 12 oncal oncal 12 3. 

SAT IS FAC 
1 Rx department hours openS days for 40 hours per week. ,1081 F.A.C.] 

2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. &4916-27.420, F.A.C,] 

3 Pharmacist on duty when Rx department open. (64916-28.109, FAC.] 
4 Proper signs displayed. (465.025(7). F.S.] 64816-28.109(1), F.A.C.I (64816-28.1081, F.A.C.] (64816-28.1035, F.A.C.) 164916-27.1001, F.A.C.J 
5 A verbal and prinled offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patient's agent. (64816-27,820(1), F.A.C.] 

6 Prescription department has convenient sink/running water. 64816-28.102(1), F.A.C.) 

7 Prescription department dean and safe. 64816-28,102(4), F.A.C.] 

a Proper equipment and references as required. (64916.28,102(5)(a), FAG.] 
9 Medication property labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] 64816-28.108, F.A.C.] - 

10 Ezpired medications removed from tile shelves. (64916-28,110 F.A.C.I 

11 COt Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. 1766.101, F.S.I 16481 6-27.300. F.A,C.] 

12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controted substances. 1485.022@), F,S,] 
13 Prescriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmadsts, {893.04(1)(c) 6, F.S,] 164B16-2a-140(3Xb), F.A,C.] 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64816-27.800, FAG.] 
15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. (893,04, F.S.) 

16 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date meet the requirements of 456.42(2), F.S.]. . 0 Ej 
17 Prescriptions may not befilled in excess ofone year or six months for controls from the date written. 893.04(1)(g), F,S,] 64816-27,211 - F.AC.] 
18 Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for Inspection. (693.07(1)(e), FS.] 
19 DEA 222 order forms property completed, (893.07, F.5.] 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer system is retrievable. (21CFR 1306.22] (64816-28.140, F.A.c.] 
21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 1485.022(l2Xb), F.S.] 

22 Certified daily log OR printout maintained. (2ICFR 1306,22(b)(3)] l64816-28.140(3Xb), F.A.C.I 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or close of busineas on next business day of learnIng or instance. 
Reports indude all required information. 465.D15(3), P.S.] - 0 0 

24 Record 01 theft or significant tossof all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriftwithin 24 hours ofdiscovery. (893.07(5), ! 465015, F.SJ 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within? days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), F.S.] 

20 Pharmacy with a retail pharmacy wholesaler lit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 499.0121(14), F.S.( 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescribing. 64616-27.210, FAG.] 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64816-28.140(4), F.A.C.] 

29 Unit dose records property maintained. 465.016(1)(I). P.S.] 104816-28.118. F.A.C.I 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-12.012(3)(a)2., d), FAC.J 
- Note: If establishment is engaged in parenteral/enteral compounding, a separate inspection torn, should be completed. 

Rematics: Re inspection conducted with relief RPH Bruce Greenbarg P532836 (provided by staffing agency Healthcare ) 
Upon entering RPh Greenbarg was not properly identified. Advised that RPH name tags must be worn during working hours 
#4: Pharmacy hours posted were posted in standard hours. (Note: Friday hours posted indicate "on Call". Re inspection was conducted on Friday. Pharmacy was open. Licenses were visible to the public 
#7: Upon entering Tempematurêwas posted at 70 degrees. 
#11: COI minutes for 9/5/11,1/5/12 and 4/9/12 were seen and copies taken. 
#19: DEA 222 completed forms were not available. Per RPh Greenbarg they are stored in controlled substance safe which was not accessible at time of inspection, #22: Daily logs were completed and copies from 1/2/12 to 6/14/12 were taken. 

#20:A controlled substance movement report from 4/6/12 to 6/15/12 was requested and provided for scheduled Il-V. 

I have resd and have had this inspection and the laws and regulations cortcerrwd herein exptained, and do alfimt that the iltfortnalion gben hetein is true and correct to die best at ny kno'Medge. I have received a copy of 
the Ucensee Bill at Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Bruce Greenbarg APh 

FiIe# 18526 

lnsp# 115783 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALT . 

DOH . S TATE. FL US 

Institutional ive 
NV 359 mevised 5/12, 12(11, 10/li. 9/11, 10/10, 10/09, 5/06, 12102, 12100 

05-15-20 12 
Date Investigator/Sr Pharmacist Signature 

I 



COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
INE LOC NEW NOT OWNER fl 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY-CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
File # 

Insp # 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

FLORU3A 

.DOH.STATE.FL.US 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
25600 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

SANFORD DUCKMAN STREET ADDRESS 
400 SOUTH DIXIE HWY SUITE 17 

TELEPHONE ft EXT. 
5615680707 

CITY COUNTY 
LAKE WORTH 60 

STATE/ZIP 
33460 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE ft 
27319 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERNITECHNICIAN ft 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 1. KWAME KYEREMATEN-AFRANI P535409 

Open GA 9A 5 5P X X 7P 2. SIMON JEAN SIMON RPT 36399 
Close lip lip liP X X lIP 3.EDWARD1(ATZPSIOo5Z 

SATISFACTORY /A YES NO 
1 Rx department hours S days for4O hours per week. 16-28.1001. F.A.C.] 

2 Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised. 64918-27.420, F.A.C.] 

3 Pharmacist on duly when Rx department open. j64816-28.109, F.A.C.] 

4 Properslgns displayed. 465.025(7), F.S.I 64916-28.109(1), F.A.C.) j64916-2&108l, FAq 64816-28.1035, F.A.C.j 64916-27,1001, F.A.C.J 
S A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patients agent. 64516-27.820(1), r.A.C,I 
6 Prescription department has convenient inning water. 102(1), FAq 
7 Prescription depariment clean and safe. 164918-28.102(4). F.A.C.I 

8 Proper equipment and references as required. (64B16-28.i02(5)(a), FAG.) 
9 Medication property labeled. 465.0255, F.S.] j64B16-28.108, F.A.C.) 

10 ExpIred medications removed torn the shelves, j64916-28.11O, FAG.) 
11 COl Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetIngs. 768.101, F.S.I 64916-27.300, F.A.C.] 

12 Board-approved Potcy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 465.022(4), F.S.] 
13 Prescriptions have the dale dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 893.04(l)(c) 6. 1 I64Bt6-28.140(3Xb). F.A.C.j 

14 Phamiacy maintains patient profile records. (64816-27,800, F.A.C.I 

15 fiJi controlled substance prescriptions contain Information required, 893.04. F.S.] 

13 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeit-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Department-approved vendor and the quantity and date meet le requirements of 1456.422), F.S.I. 

17 Prescriptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from Ihe date written. 893.04(1 )(g). F.SJ (64916-27.211, F.A.C I — — 
18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available For inspection. 1893.07(lXa), F.S.) 

— 
19 DEA 222 order forms properly compteted. 893.07, F.S.) — 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computer syslern is retrievable. I21CFR 1306.22J 64916.28.140, F.A.C.I — — 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 1485.022(1 2)(b), F.S.] — 

22 Certified daily tog OR printout maintained. 21CFR 1306.22(b)(3)] (64B18.28.140(3)(b), F,A,C,J : 
23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours Or dose of business on next business day of learning of instance. 

Reports include all required Information. (465.015(3). F.S.I 

24 Record of theil or signitcant loss of all controlled substances is being maintained and is being reported 10 the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery 893.07(5). F.S.J 465.015, F.S.] 
25 Pharmacy is reporting to the POMP within 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. (893.055(4). F.S.] 

26 pharmacy with a retail pharmacy w4iolesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
1499.0121 (14), F,S.] 

27 Registered pharmacist property prescribing. 64B1 6-27.210, P.A.C.I 

28 Compounding records property maintained. 64916-27.700. ' 
29 Unit dose records property maintained. 1485.016(l)Q), F.S.J 16-28.118, FAG,) 
30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-12.012(3)(a)2., (d), F.A.C.j 

* Note: if establishment is engaged in /enteral compounding, a separate inspection , should be completed, 

Remarls: ROUTINE INSPECTION CONDUCTED WITH KWAME KYEREMATEN-AFRANI 
SEE ADDITIONAL REMARKS PAGE 

I 

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE OBSERVATIONS: 
A RANDOM REVIEW OF SCHEDULE II CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES RX'S INDICATED THE DISPENSING OF OXYC000NE TO PATIENTS IN THEIR 20'S-40'5 WHO HAVE VISITED PAIN CLINICS OUTSIDE THE AREA AND AS FAR AWAY AS MIAMI/DADE COUNTY. PATIENTS SEEN WTH ONLY IDENTIFICATION CARDS, PAYING CASH, HAVING ONLY CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES FILLED WITH THE ADDITION OF "FILLER RX'S'. IE, IBUPROFEN WiTH INAPPROPRIATE DIRECTIONS FOR USE (ONE DAILY). MANY RX'S OBSERVED WITHOUT PRESCRIBER VERIFICATION INDICATED. 
ADVISED RPH TO REVEIW64B16-27.831 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is hue and mnect to the best of my I have received a copy o 
lire Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT KWAME KYEREMATEN-AFRANI 

Institutional Representative — 

iNY 355 Revised 12/11, 10/11. 5/Il, 110, 10/09.5/co. 12102. 12100 

04-06-2012 
Date Investigator/Sr Pharmacist Signature 

ID s 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE - ISU 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

FLORIDA 

DOH 5 TATE F L. U S/M QA 

CORPORATE NAME INSPECTION NUMBER 
FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 

TYPE OF PERMIT DATE OF INSPECTION 
2205 4/6/2012 

DOING BUSINESS AS FILE NUMBER 

. 

LICENSE # 
25600 

STREET ADDRESS 
400 SOUTH DIXIE HWY SUITE 17 

TELEPHONE # EXT# 
5615880707 

CITY COUNTY 
LAKE WORTH PALM BEACH 

STATEJZIP 
33460 

Remarks: 
UPON ENTERING THE RPH ON DUTY WAS NOT PROPERLY IDENTIFIED. 

#4: PHARMACY HOURS WRITTEN IN MILITARY HOURS. ADVISED TO CHANGE TO STANDARD HOURS FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC TO READ 

LICENSES NOT VISIBLE TO THE PUBLIC. ADVISED RPH THAT PUBLIC MUST BE ABLE TO READ LICENSES. 

#7: UPON ENTERING PHARMACY THE TEMPERATURE WAS 60 DEGREES. 
ADVISED THIS TEMPERATURE MAY COMPROMISE THE INTEGRITY OF THE MEDICATIONS. ADVISED TO ADDRESS. 

#11: ONLY 2 CQI MEETINGS HAVE BEEN HELD SINCE THIS LICENSE WAS GRANTED IN JULY 2011. MEETINGS WERE HELD 9/5/11 AND 1/5/12 AND 
BOTH INDICATED DUPLICATE MINUTES. ADVISED MEETINGS MUST BE HELD QUARTERLY AND RELATE TO QRES AND THEIR ACTIONS OF 
CORRECTION. 

#19: ELECTRONIC DEA 222 FORMS WERE NOT PROPERLY COMPLETED. 

#22: DAILY LOGS MISSING SIGNATURES SINCE 3129/12 

**NOTE** 

THIS PHARMACY HAS HAD SEVERAL PHARMACY MANAGERS IN THE LAST 9 MONTH PERIOD INCLUDING RUBEN GARZON, (PS21325). BENJAMIN 
LEVY(PS47936), DAVID MACKARAY(PS24599), EDWARD KATZ (P810052) AND SANFORD DUCKMAN 527319). 

DAILY LOGS DO NOT INDICATE GARZON WORKED ON ANY DAYS. 
DAILY LOGS INDICATE DUCKMAN ONLY WORKED ON 10/24/Il. 
DALIY LOGS INDICATE MACKARAY ONLY WORKED 3 DAYS ON 10/4.10/10 AND 9/19/2011 
DAILY LOGS DO NOT INDICATE LEVY WORKED ON ANY DAYS 
DAILY LOGS DO NOT INDICATE KATZ WORKED ON ANY DAYS 

AN OFFICAL RECEIPT WAS GIVEN TO KYEREMATEN-AFRANI FOR RECORDS REMOVED FOR COPYING. 
A REQUEST FOR PATIENT PROFILES WAS GIVEN AS WELL FOR SELECT RX'S INDICATED ON THE OFFICIAL RECEIPT TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN 72 
HOURS. 

Page: Ot 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the information given herein is true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge. I have received a copy of the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT KWAME KYEREMATEN-AFRANI 

NV 416 Reviaed 12111. /11,01107,07/03 

ID wi95 

ftiititulional Representative 
04-06-2012 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
OH.STATE.FL.IJS 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 
FILE# 

- - 
F IN ECTIQt4 

NAME OF PERMIT NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE 

DOING BUSINESS AS TELEPHONE NUMBER EXTENSION 

COUNTY. 5 577 ZIP 3flo — OEA NUMBER 

ç 
. 

PRESCRIPTION POM NOTIFICATION DATE pURe 
I 

I 

VENDOR WHOLESALER PHARMACY VENDOR LICENSE NUMBER 

REGiSTERED 

3 

. 

1. Rx department hours open Sdays for4O hours perweek. (64816-26.1081. F.A.C.j 
2. Pharmacy technicians properly Identified and supervIsed, approval date. (64B16-27.410. F.A.C.] 
3. Pharmacist on duty when ftc department open. 64216-26.109, 1 
4. Propersigns displayed. (465.025(7), P.S.] (64816-28.109(1). F.A.C.J 

(648 16-27.400(6), 
5. Written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 64B16.27.820ç1), F.A.C4 
6. PrescriptIon department has convenient sink/running water. 64216-28.102(1), ] 

Prescription department clean and safe. 64816.28.102(4), ] 
8. Properequipment and references as required. (64816-28.102, P.A.C.J 
9. MedIcation properly labeted. 465.0255, ] 64B16.28.IOB, FAG.] 
10. CQI Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (64816-27.300, F.A.C. (766.101, F.S.] 
11. PrescriptIons have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. 6, F.S.] 64816-28.140(3) (b), F.A.C.] 12. Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. (64B16-27.800, ] 
13. Controlled substance records readily retrievable. 893.07 (4)(8), ] 
14. All controlled substance prescriptions contain information required. (893.04(1) Cc), P.S.] 
15. PrescrIptions may not be filled In excess of one year or six months for conIrols from the date . 893.04(1) (g). F_s_I (64B1 F.A.C.] 
16. controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for InspectIon. (893.07(1) (a), 

F.S.] 

21. Registered pharmacist propeily prescribIng. 84816-27.21 0, F.A.C.] 
22. Compounding records properly maIntained, 6421 -27,700, F.A.C,J 1M616.28.140(4), F.A.C.I* 
23. Unit dose records properly maIntained. 465.016(1) (I), F.S.](84B16.28.1 18, F.A.C.J * 

* Note: If establishment Is engaged in parenteralfenteral Compounding, a separate inspection form should be completed. 
Remarks: W€Lci %mrm*c .tj 2aspet$.n 

. UO 

JWSMti , ?Gt. .øOavl, &LIi'eAy * '.i/Y S Na 0auwflt -t 
I have read an h vs had this Inspecilon report and he laws and re iila ons concerned explained, and the Inrormation a an rrect to Ihe best of my knowledge, 

Signattfe of P rrnacist Date 
lID Number ) 

Print Name 
NV 359 RevIsed Cr/09 05/07: 5/08, Replaces 12/02,12/00 

2 
. I 

LHEALfl 

INSPECTION# 
INSPECTION AUThORITY — CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIOA STATUTES Note: U eslabllshmient Is erianoad In parenterelfentsrai cor000undlno. license must so indicala and a senarate Inspection form should be 

NUMBER 

7. 

* Questions with C) maybe answered n/a (not applicable) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To promote & improve the health 
of all people in Flonda thmugh integrated 

John Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & cornrnunfty efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201218263 

LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC 
11180 WEST FLAGLER ST STE 2 
MIAMI, FL 33174 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/4 

ard Executive Diréctor 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444• FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTIJBE: tldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of afl people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201218263 

LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC 
11180 WEST FLAGLER ST #2 
MAIMI, FL 33174 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

L.OIt 
Executive D(rector 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quahty Assurance ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cyprass Way, Bin dO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444• FAX (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Rick Scott 
Minion: Governor 
To protect, prornote & irnprove the health i all people in through integrated John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMOR ANDUM 
Tammy Collins, Acting Executive 
Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counse( 

of Pharmacy TO: 
FROM: 
RE: Hearing - No Disputed Material 
SUBJECT: DOH v. La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 

DOH Case Number 2012-18263 

DATE: October 28. 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 

Subject: La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 
Subject's Address of 11180 West Flagler St, Ste 2 
Record: Miami, FL 33174 

Enforcement Address: 11180 West Flagler St #2 
Miami, FL 33174 

Subject's License No: 24200 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 16855 

Initial Licensure Date: 8/7/2009 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPN/PRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): 465.023(1)(c), FS (2012) 
64B16-28.109, FAC 

Prior Discipline: None 

Probable Cause panel: March 28, 2013 

Meshad & Weizer 

Subjects Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: DOH/ISU-Miami 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Hearing and Final Order 

Administrative Complaint 

Motion to Assess Costs 

Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended 

Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 

Florida Dopartm.nt of Heaith idasHuaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel• Prosecuton Services Unit 

TWITTERHe Ith FLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

FACEBOOK:FLOeparthentofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 IUBE' fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 . FAX 850/245-4683 



YG/bhh 

Exhibit 2 — Itemized Cost 

Board Notification Letter 

Prosecutor's Document 

Election of Rights 

Probable Cause Memorandum 

Final Investigative port with Exhibits 1-5 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-18263 

LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC., 
Respondent. 

MOTION FOR HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 
ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. The Department, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline the Respondent's license to practice as a 

pharmacy, thereby affecting the Respondent's substantial interests. 

2. On or about September 9, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent 

with the Administrative Complaint via Respondent's address of record with 



the Department of Health. The Department, serving the Respondent 

with the Administrative Complaint, provided the Respondent written notice 

of its decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice as a 

pharmacy. 

3. On or about June 18, 2013, Respondent filed an Election of 

Rights Form electing a formal hearing. However, Respondent failed to 

dispute issues of material fact alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. The Department placed this case on the agenda for the August 

14, 2013, Board of Pharmacy agenda. The Board tabled the case to permit 

the Respondent a final opportunity to dispute specific issues of material 

fact alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

5. On or about September 5, 2013, the Department served a 

letter notifying Respondent that it had 10 days to properly dispute issues of 

material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. (See Exhibit A) 

6. Respondent has not filed a new Election of Rights or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or otherwise indicating, that Respondent 

disputes issues of material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

7. Therefore, there are no disputed issues of material fact to be 

resolved by the Board. 



8. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima fade case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Administrative Complaint. 

WHEREFORE the parties respectfully request the Board of Pharmacy, 

after allowing the Respondent the opportunity to present oral and/or 

written evidence in mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter a Final 

Order imposing whatever discipline upon the s license that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 738115 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: yolonda.green@flhealth.gov 

.1 



I 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this 17th day of December, 2013, 

to La Perla Pharmacy, 11180 West Flagler Street, Suite 2, Miami, FL 33174. 

Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Pt s , 
v. CASE NO. 2012-18263 

LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC., 

RESPON DENT. 

I 

ADMINISTRAflVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of - (Department), by and 

through its undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint 

before the Board of Pharmacy against 1 La Perla Pharmacy, 

Inc., and in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a permitted community pharmacy within the state of 

Florida, having been issued permit number PH 24200. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 11180 West Flagler Street 

#2, Miami, Florida 33174. 

4. on or about December 10, 2012, a Department investigator 

conducted a routine inspection of Respondent. 

S. The Department investigator observed Y.FtS., a registered 

pharmacy technician, in the prescription department. 

6. The Department investigator observed the pharmacy door was 

kept slightly open after Y.RS. left the prescription department. 

7. The Department investigator observed Y.P.S. discussing work 

related issues with customers on the telephone. 

8. Respondent did not have a. licensed pharmacist on its premises 

when It was open and inspected by the Department Investigator on or 

about December 10, 2012. 

9. Due to not having a licensed pharmacist on its premises, 

Respondent's prescription department should have been closed during the 

Department Investigator's on-site visit on or about December 10, 2012. 

10. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise disdpllne any pharmacy 

DeparUnent of Health v. La Perth macy, inc 
. 

Case Number 2012-18263 



permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, Rorida 

Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

11. Rule 64B16-28.109, Florida Administrative Code, provides as 

follows: 

(1) The prescription department of any community pharmacy 
permittee shall be considered closed whenever the 
establishment is open and a Pharmacist is not present and on 
duty. A sign with bold letters not less than two (2) inches in 
width and height, shall be displayed in a prominent place in the 
prescription department so that it may easily be read by 
patrons of that establishment. The sign shall contain the 
following language: "Prescription Department Closed." 

(2) The term "not present and on duty" shall not be construed 
to prevent a pharmacist from exiting the prescription 
department for the purpose of consulting or responding to 
inquiries or providing assistance to patients or customers, 
attending to personal hygiene needs, taking a meal break 
pursuant to Rule 64B16-27.1001, Florida Administrative Code, 
or performing any other function for which the pharmacist is 
responsible, provided that such activities are conducted in a 
manner consistent with the pharmacist's responsibility to 
provide pharmacy services. 

(3) At all times when the prescription department is closed, 
either because of the absence of a pharmacist or for any other 

• reason, It shall be separated from the remainder of the 
establishment by partition or other means of enclosure, thereby 
preventing access to the prescription department by persons 

• not licensed in Florida to practice the profession of pharmacy. 

(4) The partition or other means of enclosure shall be securely 
locked or padlocked and only a pharmacist shall have the 
means to gain access to the prescription department. 

of KeSth v. La Peila inc. 
Case 201.2-16263 



(5) Whenever the prescription department of any community 
pharmacy establishment is dosed, no person other than a 
pharmacist shall enter, be permitted to enter or remain in the 
prescription department. 

12. Respondent violated the pharmacy prescription department 

requirements as set forth in Rule 64B16-28.1C}9, Florida Administrative 

Code, in one or more of the following ways: 

a. By failing to display a sign with bold letters not less than two 

(2) inches in width and height •with the language 

"Prescription Department Closed" in a prominent place in the 

prescription departitient so that It may easily be read by 

patrons of that establishment as required by Rule 64B15- 

28.109(1), Florida Administrative Code; 

b. By failing to securely lock or padlock Respondent's 

prescription department and ensure only a pharmacist had 

the means to gain access to the prescription department as 

required by Rule 64B16-28.109(4), Florida Administrative 

Code; 

c. By having persons other than a licensed pharmacist enter 

Respondent's prescription department when Respondents 

ment of Heajth v. La Perta RlarTnacy, Inc. 4 
Case Number 2012-18263 



pharmacy was dosed as required by Rule 64B16-28.109(5), 

Florida Administrative Code. 

13. Based on the• foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating a rule of the Board of 

Pharmacy, through a violation of Rule 64B16-28. 109, Florida Administrative 

Code. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following• penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education andJor any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 221t1 day of ) , 201J. 

John N. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Suraeon General and Secretary of Health 

Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0011265 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 

Departnent of Health v. La Peda Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case Number 2012-18263 



4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3255 
Telephone: (850) 2454640 
Facsimile; (850) 245-4683 
Email: 

/MGL 

FILED 
PCP: March 28, 2013 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

POP Members: Meshad & Weizer CLEPJ 
DATE 

MAP 2 8 2fl13 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 
Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 

conducted in accordance with Section 120569 and 120.57, 
Florida statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cress-examine withesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issuedon his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

of Hea'th v. La -ta Pharmacy, Inc. 6 
Case Number 2012-16263 



MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry 

of a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner 

states the following: 

At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

will enter a Final Order therein. 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 
after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2012-18263 

LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC., 
Respondent. 

/ 

1. 

Pharmacy 

action and 

2. 



discipline imposed through final order, or 
citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, for a 
violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and 
prosecution of the case. Such costs related to 
the investigation and prosecution include, but 
are not limited to. salaries and benefits of 
personnel, costs related to the time spent by 
the attorney and other personnel working on 
the case, and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board, or 
the department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of 
itemized costs and any written obiections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has 

resulted in costs in the total amount of $1,748.78, based on the 

following itemized statement of costs: 

I 
Cost to Date ***** 

Hours 
j Costs 

laint: 
I 

OOj ] 
Investigation: j 17.O0( fl 
Legal: 

[ 1 $606.22 

Compliance: 0.00 
[ 

$0.00 

Sub Total: 23.70 
[ $1,748.78] 

Expenses to 
Date: 0 00 

. 

Prior Amount: $0.06] 

TDate: 
to 

F 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $1,142.56 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of 

the costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests 

that the Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based 

upon its consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any 

timely-filed written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $1,142.56 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any 

other discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with 

Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the 

Board of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $1,142.56. 

3 



DATED this dayof 

_____________,2013. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Yolonda Y. Green 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 738115 
(850) 245-4444 Telephone 
(850) 245-4683 Fax 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 

day of )ti'trv7 -%-. , 2013, to La Perla Pharmacy, 

11180 West Flagler 1 #2, Miami, FL 33174. 

Y. Green 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 

the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 323g9-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 

case number(s) 2012-18263 (Department of Health v LA PERLA 
PHARMACY) are ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY- 
EIGHT DOLLARS AND SEVENTY-EIGHT CENTS ($1,748.78). 

6) The costs for DOH case number(s) 2012-18263 (Department of Health 
v LA PERLA PHARMACY) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case number(s) 2012- 
18263 (Department of Health v LA PERLA PHARMACY) are detailed 
in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 

receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

I of2 ff 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 30 day of , 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

Notary Signature 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of2 



Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201218263 

Subject's Name: LA PET LA PHARMACY. NC 

I 
Cost to Date 

I 
Hours Costs 

[ 
1.00 

[ 
17.00 L 
5.70 

[ 0.001 $0.00 
**********j ********** 

Total: $1,748.78 

to Date: 
] 

so.oo 

Prior Amount: 
1 1 

Total Costs to Date: 
] F 

Si 1 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMO0TIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 10/29/2013 



D
iv

hi
on

 o
l 

.A
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

M
su

ra
nc

e 

'v
i 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

S
ys

te
m

 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

18
26

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
10

/2
9/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

I 
of

2 

S
ta

ilC
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 H

ou
rs

 
S

ta
ll 

R
at

e 
C

os
t 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
at

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

-I
A

 1
07

 
1.

00
 

$5
4.

90
 

$5
4.

90
 

12
/1

3/
20

12
 

78
 

IN
IT

IA
L 

R
E

V
LE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F 

C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
00

 
$5

4.
90

 

I 
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 U
N

IT
 

I 

12
09

 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

12
/1

8/
20

 1
2 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

09
 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
01

/0
8/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

12
09

 
3.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
91

.9
4 

01
/0

9/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

09
 

2.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
£1

27
.9

6 
01

/1
1/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

12
09

 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

01
/1

6/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

09
 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
0 

1/
18

/2
01

3 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
09

 
2.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$1
27

.9
6 

01
/2

2/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
M

l2
09

 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

01
/2

3/
20

13
 

76
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

 P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 
12

09
 

5.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

19
.9

0 
02

/0
1/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

17
.0

0 
$1

,0
87

.6
6 

P
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

I-
IL

L3
8B

 
1.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
38

.2
6 

02
/1

8/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
38

B
 

0.
80

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$8

5.
08

 
02

/1
8/

20
13

 
28

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

F
IL

L3
8B

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

03
/2

8/
20

13
 

68
 

S
IG

N
IN

G
 C

LO
S

IN
G

 O
R

D
E

R
S

, 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
A

S
O

N
A

I3
 

H
LL

38
B

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

04
/0

7/
20

13
 

79
 

S
T

IP
U

LA
T

IO
N

 
H

LL
38

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
04

/0
8/

20
13

 
79

 
S

T
IP

U
LA

T
IO

N
 

H
LL

38
B

 
0.

60
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$6
3.

81
 

04
/2

2/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
38

B
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
04

/2
5/

20
13

 
79

 
S

T
IP

U
LA

T
IO

N
 

S
B

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
15

4 
05

/2
9/

2C
I3

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

S
E

 F
IL

E
 

I-
IL

L3
8B

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

06
/0

4/
20

13
 

91
 

B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

H
LL

38
I3

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

06
/1

9/
20

 1
3 

36
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 L
E

T
T

E
R

 
E

X
H

IB
IT

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ad
m

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

--
 



JD
E

N
T

IA
L

**
* 

M
ed

ic
al

 
D

ua
lil

y 
t.s

su
ro

nc
e 

/i 
\ 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
12

18
26

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
10

/2
9/

20
13

 
P

ag
e 

2 
of

2 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

H
LL

38
B

 
0.

20
 

51
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

09
/0

5/
20

13
 

36
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 L
E

T
T

E
R

 
13

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

09
/1

6/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

5.
70

 
56

06
.2

2 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

51
,7

48
.7

8 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
--

 
ite

nh
iz

ed
co

st
 



D
iv

is
io

na
l 

**
* 

C
O

 N
 F

 l
ID

 E
N

 T
I A

L
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
uo

lil
y 

f.s
su

,o
nc

e 

t'v
t . 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

10
/2

9/
20

 1
3 

P
ag

e 
I 

of
 I 

is
e 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

ni
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

at
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
--

 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

December 17, 2013 

La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 
11180 West Flagler St. #2 
Miami, FL 33174 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Re: DOH vs. La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 
DOH Case Number: 2012-18263 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing involving disputed issues of material fact 
executed by you on June 11 2013, concerning the above referenced case. You failed to dispute the 
allegations of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint within the 10 days provided to you 
pursuant to the Department's letter dated September 5, 2013. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy. Please be advised your case will be set at the convenience of the 
Department and/or the Board and you will be notified of the date and time approximately two weeks 
prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sincerely 

YG/ab 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecuion Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row— Suite 105 
PHONE: FAX 850/245-4683 

i.com 
TWIUER:HeaIThyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartinentofl.leajm 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

ii& 
HEALTH 

Assistant General Counsel 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

#4 
rcta 

HEALTH 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Seaetary 

La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 
11180 W. Flagler Street, #2 
Miami, Florida 33174 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

RE: Department of Health v. La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case No. 2012-18263 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

September 5, 2013 I 

The Department of Health is in receipt of your Election of Rights form sent to my office on June 12, 
2013. You again failed to dispute the allegations of fact contained in the Administrative Complaint. 
Your case was heard at the August 2013 Board of Pharmacy meeting as in informal hearing. The 
Board of Pharmacy elected to table your case and give you a final opportunity to properly dispute 
specific issues of material fact contained in the Administrative Complaint. 

Please feel free to contact me if you wish to discuss this matter. At minimum, please return 
documentation indicating the specific paragraph numbers in the Administrative Complaint that you are 
disputing. If you have any documentation that you want me to consider regarding this matter, please 
forward it to my attention at your earliest convenience. 

You have ten ) days from receipt of this package to return the Election of Rights in which you 
dispute specific issues of material fact contained in the Administrative Complaint to my office. If I fail to 
receive the form within this time frame, your case will be forwarded to the Board of Pharmacy for an 
informal hearing. 

If you have any questions about this letter or any other questions relating to your case, please feel free 
to contact me by telephone at (850) 245-4444, extension 8199. 

Administrative Complaint 
Election of Rights form 
Explanation of Rights 
Settlement Agreement 

Florida Department of Health 
Office i the General counsel' Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

PHONE: • FAX 

.com 
TWI1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACE SO : F LD e pa rtae ntolHea lth 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 

Certified Article Number 

7196 9008 9111 9323 9260 

SENDERS 1RECORD 

MGL 
Enclosures: 

Assistant General 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

TO: Department of Health, Prosecution Services Unit 

FROM: Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

RE: La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 
Case Number: 2012-18263 

MEMBERS: Gavin Meshad and Michele Weizer 

DATE OF FCP: March 28, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-3 •.•..................s............... 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

otherwise filly advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(l)(c), Florida Statutes (2012). by violating a rule of the Board of Pharmacy, 
through a violation of Rule 64B 16-28.109. Florida Administrative 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 
c) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 

other 

4 eiat UMC ( 
Probable Panel Date 

Board of Pharmacy 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: MIAMI AREA XI Date of Case: 12/12/2013 Case Number: PH 2012-1 8263 

Subject: 
LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC 
11180 West Flagler St #2 
Miami , Florida 33174 

(305) 551-8419- Business 

Source: 
DOH- MIAMI-ISU 

Prefix: 2205 License Profession: Board: Report Date: 02/05/2013 
#24200 Pharmacy Pharmacy 

Period of Investigation: 12/12/2012- 02/05/2013 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: Possible Violation of F.S. 456.056(1 )(k)(dd); 465.016(1 )(r); 465.023 (1 )(c), F.S.; Rule 64B16- 28.109, 
F.A.C. Violate Statute/Rule; Failure to perform legal obligation. 

Synopsis: : This investigation was predicated upon receipt of an inspection submitted by the Department of health 
Miami ISU on 12/10/12, in regards to a routine inspection was conducted at La Perla Pharmacy, mc, a Community 
Pharmacy (PH24200), located at 11180 West Flagler St, S-2, Miami, FL 33174. The investigator went to the pharmacy 
and found it opened and no pharmacist was present Ion duty. In addition, the door to the drug department was 
unlocked. 

LA PERLA PHARMACY was notified of the investigation by letter, dated 12/18/2012 (Exhibit #2) and was 
provided a copy of the case summary and initiating documents (Exhibit #1). 

A search of the DOH licensure database reveals that LA PERLA PHARMACY is currently licensed as a 
Pharmacy. 

No patients were identified, thus patient notification is not required. 

LA PERLA PHARMACY is not currently represented by an Attorney. 

LA PERLA PHARMACY initially denied the allegations. However admitted to the allegations in an affidavit 
which was sent to the Miami Field Office. 

Related Case(s): NON,E 

George Mulero, 

Distribution: Q/ISU 

FEB 07 

DO HIM 

HQ 

PAGE 1 

— . 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER 2012-18263 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INVESTIGATIVE REPORT COVER 1 

II. TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 

Ill. INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

Summary of Exhibits/Records/Documents 3 

Interview 
Interview of JUANA ELVIRA GARCIA NARANJO-( Witness) 3-4 
Interview of VUNET PELLON SOLER-( Witness) 4 
Interview of SONIA RODRIGUEZ-( Witness) 4 

Interview of ZUZETTE DE LA RUA (Subject) -5 
Interview of ANGELA. SANCHEZ - (Subject) 5 

Investigator's Note 6 

EXHIBITS 

1. Case Summary and Initiating Documents 7-11 

2. Copy of Notification letter, dated 12/18/2012 12 

3. FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE, DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS 13 

4. Copy of AFFIDAVITS and TRANSFER of CORPORATION Documents 
received 01/18/2013 14-49 

5. Copy of AFFIDAVITS, STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT and ARTICLES of 
INCORPORATION Received on 1/24/2013 50-57 

Page 2 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-1 8263 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #1: Case Summary and Initiating Documents. 

Exhibit #2: Copy of Subject notification letter, dated 12/18/2012. 

Exhibit #3: Copy of Report from the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE, DIVISION OF 
CORPORATIONS which delineates owner as ANGELA. SANCHEZ dated 
1 2/1 8/2012. 

Exhibit#4: Copy of AFFIDAVIT from Pharmacy owner, AFFIDAVIT from Pharmacy Technician 
And other documents provided by the pharmacy CONSULTANT received on 
01/18/2013. 

Exhibit #5: Copy of AFFIDAVIT, STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT and ARTICLES OF 
INCORPORATION received on 01/24/2013. 

INTERVIEW OF MR. SCOTT CRAIG MAAS- PHARMACIST LICENSE PS 15162- ) 
Employer- La Perla Pharmacy 
11180 West Flagler Street #2 
Miami, Florida 33147 
(305) 551-8419 

On 1/18/2013, when this investigator arrived at LA PERLA PHARMACY, he observed two women 
working inside the dispensing area along with a gentleman who identified himself as SCOTT CRAIG 
MASS the pharmacist. However, he was sitting down reading a bible while the two ladies worked. 
This investigator asked MAAS how long he has been employed as a pharmacist with LA PERLA and 
MAAS responded by stating that he was hired approximately two weeks ago which was in early 
January of 2013. MAAS had no further information to provide relative to the investigation. 

INTERVIEWOF MS.JUANA ELVIRA GARCIA NARANJO-LICENSE ) 
Employer- La Perla Pharmacy 
11150 West Flagler Street #2 
Miami, Florida 33147 
(305) 551-8419 

On 1 8/201 3, this investigator interviewed NARANJO upon arrival to LA PERLA and she stated that 
she has been working at this pharmacy as a REGISTERED PHARMACY TECHNICIAN for 
approximately one (1) week. She also stated that she previously worked at the HEALTH STAFF 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-18263 

PHARMACY in the South West area of Miami. She also stated that she has no information relative to 
any incidents in the pharmacy prior to her commencement date of 01/10/2013. 

INTERVIEW OF MS. VUNET PELLON SOLER-LICENSE ) 
Employer- La Perla Pharmacy 
11180 West Flagler Street # 2 

Miami, Florida 33147 
(305) 551-8419 

On 1/1 8/201 3, this investigator interviewed SOLER while conducting an investigation relative to the 
compliant and allegation which was received in our Miami field office. SOLER stated that she has 
been employed at LA PERLA since April 2012. She recalls that on 12/10/2012, she was the 
technician inside the dispensing area. She was both on the computer and on the telephone with 
ABACUS obtaining information from them to fill out appropriate applications. She also stated that 
there was a pharmacist present on that day. However, after discussing with the owner SANCHEZ 
The compensation amount for his services, according to SOLER the pharmacist left the premises. 
Thus, following that event the pharmacist did not have a pharmacist present for the remainder of the 
day. 

INTERVIEW OF MS. SONIA RODRIGUEZ-(WITNESS} 
President- Capital-One Consultant Health Care 
2500 NW gth Avenue Suite 261 
Miami, Florida 33122 
(305) 477-6507 

On 1/1 8/201 3, this investigator made contacted with Ms. RODRIGUEZ via telephone and she stated 
that she had been the recipient of the notification from our office and some how this item was 
misplaced and an appropriate response was not provided prior to this date 01/18/2013. RODRIGUEZ 
responded to the allegation and compliant in behalf of LA PERLA by stating that on 12/10/2012 the 
Pharmacy Technician had gone into the prescription area to obtain a copy of the new contract from 
ABACUS software. 

INTERVIEW OF MS. ZUZETTE DE LA RUA-CO-OWNER 
Co-Owner —La Perla Pharmacy, Inc 
11180 WestFlaglerSt#2 
Miami, Florida 33147 
(305) 551-8419 

On 1/18/2013, this investigator interviewed LA RUA who identified herself as the wife and co-owner 
of the pharmacy. She stated that she was not aware of any notifications which were sent to the 
pharmacy by this investigator. She asked her husband SANCHEZ, "why didn't you provided me with 
a the document which arrived, During the interview with his wife he then recalls that he had sent the 

Page 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-18263 

notification to his pharmacy consultant Ms. SONIA RODRIGUEZ. LA RUA stated and confirmed that 
she never observed the notification and also had no knowledge that it had arrived. LA RUA also 
stated that a pharmacist was present and had to leave however, when asked to provide that name 
and phone number of the pharmacist who present on 12/10/2012 neither could provide the 
information relative to the pharmacist. 

INTERVIEW OF MR. ANGEL SANCHEZ- OWNER- ) 
Owner-La Peria Pharmacy 
11180 West Flaglerst#2 
Miami, Florida 33174 
(305) 551-8419 

On 1/18/2013, this investigator visited LA PERLA PHARMACY and interviewed Mr. SANCHEZ who 
provided an identification card which listed his photograph, name, address and DOB as 12/04/1969. 
This investigator provided him with a copy of subject notification and case summary which is dated 
12/18/2012 and requested to ascertain why a response had not been submitted to my attention at 
the Miami Field office. According to SANCHEZ he recalls having been the recipient of the letter and 
having placed it in his office and that's all he remembers. SANCHEZ was also asked why he never 
called in response to the communication and he could not provide an answer. SANCHEZ was also 
questioned about the initial compliant he stated that there was pharmacists present on 12/10/12. 
According to SANCHEZ a Pharmacist arrived and they were allegedly discussing compensation for 
the days services and that the pharmacist did not accept the offer for compensation and left the 
premises. However, SANCHEZ did not recall the name of the pharmacist. 

Page 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE REPORT CASE NUMBER: 2012-18263 

'S NOTE 

On 01/18/2013, when this investigator returned tc the Miami field office a package had been 
delivered to this investigator's attention. Upon inspection it contained several documents which are enclosed as exhibits in this case. On 01/24/2013, a second set of documents had arrived apparently 
sent by the pharmacy consultant SONIA RODRIGUEZ. 

Page 6 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Governor Surgeon General & Secretary 

December18, 2012 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
Mr. Angel A. Sanchez 
do La Perla Pharmacy Inc 
11180 West Flagler St # S2 
Miami, Florida 33174 

Case Number: 2012-18263 

Dear Mr. Sanchez: 

We are currently investigating a case received by the Department of Health. The allegation, if 
substantiated, would be a violation of ustatutes/rules)), 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or * call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your resume and identify the address of your current employer, even 
if you chose not to submit a response. This information, your response f one is provided) and 
any other information gathered during the investigation will be considered by the Probable Cause 
Panel when determining whether a formal administrative complaint should be filed in this matter. 
Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 
days after the panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the 
general public. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this 
investigation because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all 
people in Florida through integrated state, county and community efforts, If you have any 
questions, please call me at (305) 470-5894. 

Sincerely, 

George Mulero, CFE 
Medical Malpractice Investigator 

nv Form 356 Department of Health, Bureau of Enforcement 
Revised 10/07 Investigative Services Unit Created 06/07 8350 NW nd Terrace #400 Doral, Florida 33166 

Exhibit 2— 



www.sunbiz.org - Departmer iState Page 1 of 2 

Events No Name History 

Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Profit Corporation 
LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC 

Filing Information 
Document Number P09Q00022385 

I 

FEt/EIN Number 
Date Filed 
State 
Status 
Last Event 

264436984 

03/10/2009 
FL 

ACTIVE 

AMENDMENT 
Event Date Filed 12/06)2012 
Event Effective Date NONE 

Principal Address 
11180 WEST FLAGLER SUITE #2 
MIAMI FL 33174 

Mailing Address 
11180 WEST FLAGLER SUITE #2 
MIAMI FL 33174 

Registered Agent Name & Address 
SANCHEZ, ANGELA 
11180 WEST FLAGLER SUITE #2 
MIAMI FL 33174 US 

Name Changed: 12/03/2012 

Officer/Director Detail 
Name & Address 

Title PSD 

SANCHEZ, ANGEL A 
11180 WEST FLAGLER SUITE #2 
MIAMI FL 33174 

Title VP 

DE LA RUA, ZUZETTE 
11180 WEST FLAGLER ST., STE 2 
MIAMI FL 33174 

Annual Reports 

Report Vear Filed Date 
2010 
2011 

2012 

0 /1 3/2010 
04/27/2011 

04/30/2012 

Document Images 

jt_ 3 

Home Contact Us .FlIing Services 

Previous on List Next on List Return To List 

Document Searches Forms Help 

Entity Name Search 

/OG/2012--Aniencjment 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


La Perla Pharmacy Inc 
11180 West Flagler Street, Unit 2 
Miami florida 33174 

Open from 9am to 5pm 

RECEIVED 

Mission: 
La Perla Pharmacy Inc mission is to provide innovative services to treat illness and 
disease and promote the improvement of personal health. 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance, 
Investigative Services Unit 
8350 NW 52 Ter, Suite 400 
Doral Florida 33166 
George Mulero, CFE, Medical Malpractice 
Investigator 

Re: La Perla Pharmacy Inc 
License No: PH24200 
DOH Complaint No. 2012-18263 

cfl 

Exhibit V 

N 182013 

INVESTIGATIVE SERWCES 

Florida Agency for Health Care 
A dminist ration 



January 10, 2013 

Florida for Health Care Administration 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance, Investigative Services Unit 
8350 Nw 52 Ter, Suite 400 
Dora! Florida 33166 
George Mulero, CFE, Medical Malpractice Investigator 

Re: La Perla Pharmacy Inc 
License No: PH24200 
DOH Complaint No. 2012-18263 

Dear Mr. Mulerol 

On the allegations unknown since we are missing the CASE SUMMARY 
Please mail or fax to La Perla Pharmacy Inc 
11180 West Flagler Street, Unit 2 
Miami, Fl 33174 

Explanation 

On the possible allegations on violating (Unknown awaiting 
second letter with the Case Summary and copy of the 
inspector notes). La Perla Pharmacy only received the 
letter of 20 days. 

On December 7,2012 Board of Pharmacy Inspector came in for a routine 
inspection and found that the Technician was inside the presOription 
department and no pharmacist on hand. 

Explanation 

The technician had gone into the prescription department to obtain a copy 
of the new contract from Abucus software. 

Evidence 

Affidavit from Technician (Exhibit 1) 

Affidavit from owner (Exhibit 2) 



Copy of the Abucus Software (Exhibit 3) 

Purchase agreement and changes done to the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy. (Exhibit 4) 

1 
Any question pleases call or visit our pharmacy. 



Rick Scott John H. Armstrong, D, FACS 
Governor Surgeon General & Secretary 

December 18 2012 

CONFIDENTIAL : 
Mr. Angel A. Sanchez 
do La Perla Pharmacy Inc 
11150 West Flagler St # S2 
Miami, Florida 33174 

Case Number: 2012-18263 

Dear Mr. Sanchez: 

We are currently investigating a case received by the Department of Health. The allegation, if 
substantiated, would be a violation of (<statutes/rules>). 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or * call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your resume and identify the address of your current employer, even 
if you chose hot to submit a response. This information, your response (if one is provided) and 
any other information gathered during the investigation will be considered by the Probable Cause 
Panel when determining whether a formal administrative complaint should be filed in this mailer. 
Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until ID 
days after the panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the 
general public. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this 
investigation because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote & improve the health of all 
people in Florida through integrated state, county and community efforts. If you have any 
questions, please call me at (305) 470-5894. 

Sincer 

Georje Mulero, CFE 
Medfal Malpractice Investigator 

nv Form 356 Department of Health, Bureau of Enforcement 
Revised 10107 Investigative Services Unit 
Created 06/07 8350 NW Terrace # 400 Doral, Florida 33166 



Affidavit 
I 

Dale mber 30,2012 

Name 

"16 1cr 
December T, 2012 

I ')Cjn technician for La Pefla Pharmacy on the day of the routine inspection 

the door of the prescription to pickup the contracts from Abacus Software was the 

new owner was standing nex* to the door wthticg for me to pickup the confract 

Since rely 

This person ia produced the toilowing ion: 

________________________ 

Subscilbed and sworn to or befois me this day of 

NOTARY STATE SEAL: 

BEATRIZ CARREOPI - 
MY COMMISSIOn # EEl 18933 
EXPI 2015 

otarv Puhue Nwne 

My CommiDsion Expires 



2012-12-05 05:29 CS 3052204900 > 305551842D 

LX CLAIMS, mc. 
flZC1'RO2JZC e-GA&XM EM PRXCZ]W 

incus sopn.as 

SCRIP : 
PC par Transaction 

(Bundle up to 4 fix/transaction) 

ONB-TZJ'ff BED-tIP rzz(s): 

Free 

ECTRONIC FUNDS 2I1AN'SFRR; 
Customers must; sign an ACH 
areewent. The agreement can 
be cancelled at anytime. 

THIS IS TO ACRNOWLEDGR ThAT A ARATE CRARGS FOR PRESCRIPTION CLAIMS 
ELECTRONICALLY TO AN? TJJIP.D PARTY CARRIER WILL BE CHARGE AS 

ODtLINED ABOVE, AND THAT YOU AGREE TO PAY SUCH CMRGSS UPON EIPT OF 
INVOICE. 

•1______________ 
IGNATURE PATE 

SUSETTS ALEJSfl'RO 205) SSk-9419 
.XGME (Print or type) (Area code) E 
LA KM PHARMACY, . 

___________________________ 

PHARMACY NAN! EDICAID PROVIDER NUMBER 

ESEE4 090 26 
NPI# NABP# 

1190 WEST FLAGLER SUITS 2 IL ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO: 

ADDRESS 
$000 . 121 Ave PH-G 

MThXI. FL 33174-1216 MrAMI, FL 33163 

City, State, Zip code Phone (305) 220-0400 

YOUR CUSTOMER 9 15 20093091 

TEE SVTHORIZATXON FOR nE-ARRANGED PAThRNTS 70311 MUST BE ATTACSD 

3DVd Vi 0E 



2012-12-05 05:29 CS 3052204900 '> 305551842D 

ER iRE, 
AVTEORraTION FOR Pfl -ARRANGED nErs 

THIS FORK MUST SR COMPLETED AND RETURNED 

M a ,,,rm gouwniejlt flthod paJuIaar. t CZat.IS. . aM for JthUz paro4cipation a our Clearirg keuac (flJ P%OJtOM, 
At&t s an elacl.ontc bUSing mtahank,iui lrntch 0 tram a bakiflg •.ccgimt 511 due r , Lao. tar . Thndnd. 

As a safeguard against srttr, an icesSsed asvitty the! Dot £E4à. I'OII tit St arid LO each prior to the .qhedaled dtre. 5 canto aeélvSLy nuted tbxaufl the network and specS fit. total 
amount that lfl be ed. itt debit v the atcount wi2 1 oetur ar about the 21t1, ct the 

The ! agpaorrent S. nearssazy for the peacenabg of your aattrarL, pSease end in tonta Co avoid thaioy at your 
bastion ng en up an the St sic. nccwcfl. The n pzocsoaing is ac par ion. 
YNXS Is sm An dm09. 19 tURN OOT I CThWZL?rD rad whir, and voided chpok ar.t.aohed) &zFomg rvun 
CDn771AC? CAN FE nocssamo no ax nazaitap as nir swxren. 

ACCOUNT La Perle Ptaxaacy, ma. paaount# 20093091 
ADDRESS 11190 West ?lacler Butte 2 i. Fki3174 2226 

I uaxsn' Auzwdpza fl axxs, t. , 'rwpawr-, re mxnarE to cvn accvtwr szrcena ! ajo THE ranMiaAz ZNSIT2TJTZWI JMN2V RRIEIAUflR CUJ.W iv dun 10 itttH 

FX1MNCIA& INSTItUTION 

CItY 

_______________________________ 

STATE ZIP 

____________ 

TRAJJSrT/*ak NO- O67O148Z1 4CC. NO. 4271290525 

18 ?O RfliARI ZR EVL.L PWisCZ AND EflUCT coiWAxy LaD DEPQS#0flT ilAva ESC&VZD FRaf a OP , $ x1, SUCI& iFE iD l WOOD At O ARDOKO CWWJAIT AIW a OPPQRYTPU?T 70 ACT 09 IT PMIOJt aflfl ACWENT as 004W CWRRGEO, .1 HAVE na LTGIJT iv WE IWE snowit AN sagn it NY A000URT ST ntxosnt*r, I GENII WEXCTPN lance or oon m IN Ot It tRIOS STORY WXTUZJF .15 awa 
ZSSUAZCR OP 5iW R7WTATTh7IT Of O D&V2 AVThR Mfl om,fl accoua PIatr, 

I - DATE 

1AME (PRINT) landro 
PRILRMACY IThME a e Phazmac'r. I SOS) 551-9429 

• PLEASE ATTAfl a vPrDW lEar DRAPOZ ON THE ABOVE aacovyr * 

PLACE VOIDED CnCK HERE 

rpanrrIPaa - La — taq..digJ auubar leaned — bones at chin. It *nS,t.nte, your s. 
.caJrar So. - beeped — uS 01 abash Cr deposit uS;, if you sasiacanes. please en.ct pour hank. 

Page 2 of 3 

30 i 



2012-la-os 05:30 CS 3V5ZZ049U0 )) r •tn 

ABACUS INC. 
AVTEORIZATIOIq FOR Pfl-ARRARGED PAYMENTS 

tHIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED UTh RETURNED 

ACCOUNT La Perla Inc 

ADDRESS 11180 West Flafler Suite 2 Miami, FL 33174-1216 

HEREBY AUTHORIZE EX, 1 CALLED , 
TO tNITIATE DEBIT ENTRIES TO OUR CHECKING ACCOUNT INDICATED BELOW 

THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTION NAMED CALLED 
TO DEBIT THE SANE TO SUCH ACCOUNT. 

flNL3JCtAT. 

TATE ZIP 

TE?.NSIV/ZtBA NO. Qil22422 ACC. NO. 427129QflS 

THIS AUTHORITY IS TO REZ4A.IW IN FULL FORCE m EFPECF UNTIL COMPANY AND 

DEPOSITORY HAVE BZCEIV!D WRITTEN NOTIFICATION FROM ME 0? ITS 
IINAflON IN SUCH TIME MIX) IN SUCH MAIThIER AS TO AFFORD COMPANY AIW' 

DEPOSITOfl A RflBO1ThBLE OL'PORDUNITY TO ACT ON IT PRIOR TO CHARGING 

ACCOUNT. AFTER ACCOUNT HAS CIThRGED • I HAVE THE RXGIIT TO lEAVE THE 

AMOUNT OF I ERRONEOUS DflIT ThWLEDIAThLY CBIDITED TO MY ACCOUNT BY 

IEPOSTTORY, PROVIDED I SEND WRITI'EN NOTICE 0! SUCH DEBIT ENTRY IN ERROR 

TO DEPOSITORY WITHIN IS DAYS WaLLOWING IBBUMICB OP TEE StATEMENT OF 30 
DAIS AFTER POSTING, WRICHEVER OCCURS FIRST. 

SIGNATURE X PATE 

NA!.W (PRINT) Susette sislarniro 

PHARMACY NAI'Z La Perla Pharnacy. . TIThE 

PHONE 4 5) 551-8410 

* PLEASE LTTSCE A VOZDtD CEECK DRNVN ON THE ABOVE ACCOUNT * 

90/63 BENd 

CITY 

Page 3 of 3 



tUVcw aJdèen QNn c*St' 0MW Cop net 

. 

I Cj 

£O/t'O tfl 

2012-12-03 00:45 CS ' 

1bI14 Pt saiSs: 
ow 

Mtni 

7)pe qfe: 

ChaSe form 

: 
/ A Okt5nr&4QkA 

IWAD 

B' 

I . 
rhmztLciiifl I CEflldn 

ct'Mt Iklfij,UyALfl 

Coats: I ci' 

Av/Qfflerfl 

ILL it: S bove 

-J 

[ , 



2012-12-05 05:29 CS 3052204900 " r , 
I J dated paaber I, ! between hbacua . 1sf. ('eam,anr I. SDOG t • ai AveiNe PB-U. 

MUsH., flpdda 3fl5S. Lea nuocegeor. and anlgao, tzd PESIS .nd it. Iwin, SUtc.aEOre, Itiintg;ratott 
and 193i5Th5. herMnattst caned I 'caccoat,' I. 

of furs to. Cosconer a asocial priae on the use of A ptogrsm galled ehariacy Pin. (soIbware') that t gpaciaUy deaiwurnd erA cisatootrod for to. eaatowr, ..ith the undvr;oandiag that the csatatr desires cod is willing 
go fl tar intenance d .'.iflcrt 

mania, a,atamar dcsit,. — and suppedt for the SCPTWISU Sn actordauv. ttb the and conditions aS this lgrttaflt. 
4 

a, in eazstdaration at (Ma premises .od the t this the panics agree ag tollowe 

1. OVflVflV. This agrent shalt be steely by and l C. binding upa' and o the benefit of the 

ieL • totir betta, aXtoZtOts, adjuSniatratan. ,sdctaSafl and a business is bronsferree, lw;ema lt noti.Ey Cosjparty at Sent thirty any; bat Ore b1 tranaser end the vr.natersc aliall be ssat(tiad af 1he On s or this a9r.tient. 
53.010 of Cuasmer to secure an aesurpLien of u lQzedIrCt by the tnnaferee Ebsil not serve to relieve os ttenat.ree of S ts , hereunder. This agreessat shall aurvLit any sale, noigmoent, or other of fla deciand premises. Cootaiar ages.. 

to oøtaln a weiwn of ady Sites in fort aupa4.icä by y. Failure to this option shall not ccmstitutt a ler ci 

coapasy's other oaiseet of actien under la's. If any litigation revolts In toaseation O la the succeaaijal petty shall 

be entitled to easooabl* attorney' a tees. this Iiqr.sseot is entewad Muco by eustoaer/owner Cr through ice daly svtborised ago;.; 

vita. foil jcmbvla.Ige of the contntt Stoat and eOpn.aecent flare toby the Owner of ci.. demised praiser. 

2. ?fl*, s aqreectnu h be tet an l tars of 1 o tro,u no off salv, date This Agreement 

dialS thereafter be automabseafly renewed suooeasive term. of the ease duration. vitleas either partrtenninase$ . 
A writing, at least nitty says pflcr cc the ezpS.ration the ten thws in forte 

a. In. Costnr agesew to pay the specibe& ncnnb'y toe of , par softvart maintenance ass telephone £iipçcrt 

at the lacation listed below, or the duxse.iCn g this The agree. that the above iy to I due Mud payable 

a the first ) 45 the , sad is delinquent after the twentieth (2cth) of bOa nuck. customer agrees to p.y Ctnçeay before 

the 1s of the month, saymente received atttr the of the haunt, sin ho .ubject to a Sib late tee or of the heanoe due 

if greater. oheoka .tojac to a $3 f on. x. ta pay the ateunt un within thirty (hE days of the due date say 

result in reaue.l and tesporary dS5000necciOn 05 •arviod. Osatleex agrees to pay em, and all applieslile cotiettion cost.. et.tonlsya 

fees, court oUst aa& interest accrued. to th, event thea th. Oistaet want. to cancei. thi. agneseut, tat. co pay 

the siontiw on Apsuement. 

4. PIUTECTZOS OP SQVTUZJ • Custowee aokszOYledgeS that the Coapeny retains alt ti.tle. lt and other proprietary rir.s in and 

to the cottwaro. egreea to treat the software furnished to Customer 85 a valuable soset of tee Company and thtfl adopt 

reasonable scasuree cc prelant unanthorisS aaesn no the software, In the swaM that the is teflinated sy either torty 
per a,iy reason, tusar eball. repovis the etftnfe I roe o and raturn .11 of the software and 

docunentatior. c the Cuptauer grant. the Company full access 6 She La Laspoon any vi atSon of this agrognent, 

5, leProsy ftnnoas, The y will provina tolephona suppor€ and future ennancewenca of the Software &t flO west to the iotSagE. 
a. parc of this agreement, rovided Lest the elIbancwente veto not requested and m.ade iusinly for the Customer - any 
shalt in to can be required to portofla ly support earvio.s, unless oth.vwise sped_f Sad der Separate agraec*ut, 

6 • an OflITATlOUS. Tht CuSWSUY s no lity of any Mind, supreme or isvlief, j without lSLetâ,ozi 

warranties of fitness for S pantcular .. ii. no .Yent shall the terpany be lishlo tot axq' counter or software 

taizun resulting an lost of infanstion or labor haute, lose at profits or of butineu, including special., Stciaatt..t or 

coatquentiai. dase,gea, &t coqiany bat u advised of the poaathttity at such damages. 

M., ta agtemit shall be intenreted wider, and governed by, the Laws of the State Of Plorida. Tha parh.d hereto 

agge. that asyacajun relating to this agnnnt h be th;tStuittfl end prosecuted La the caCtus of Ot County of tU.ani-DaSe, State 

as ) arid., and ' party hereto waive. rho right to change of venue or triel by jury. ThSa lraanueet containc else entire asr,.emenc 

between the parties vkereto lad any eat he iSts except in writing, signed by Lly thorized ropsacetativo od bath pnrtu... 
If any ptnviain b.tnad is held invaLid by a court of jusri.dictioa. it shall he •tsuxntie.lly deleted and all 
pto'4oiota ehoiL remain Sn toil. bra. and effect. 

ignature: - Signatunu 

twos i Orlando .tlCcrro . tree. , 

_________ 

r,afflXop 07 sonnn 

flies liEn Ft.ath 2 .Mdrefl: 

__________________________________ 

City.etate,zip' Pt ignet ore: 

_______________________ 

Teleçhono; ni-ace 

.lnerfcentact p a 

GO/GO fl 



Capital-One Consultant Health Care 
2500 NW 79 Aye, Suite 261 
Miami Fl 33122 
305-477-6507 
305-477-6518 Fax 

To BETH RANNE Sonia Rodriguez 

Fax 1-850-413-6982 

Date: 12/5/2012 Phone: 

)( JJrgent _For Review _Please Comment _Please Reply —Please 
Recycle 

Sonia Rodriguez 
305-477-6507 



Fingerprint Technologies 
5200 SW 8 St. 
Suite 204-B 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 US 

(305)443-9148 .com 

Fingerprint Technologies 
Sales Receipt 

12/06/2012 
J 

56109 

Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
ZuzettefleLaRua 
Angel Sanchez 

FDLE 850-410-8161 
DCF 5-7 Days J 1 I6@DCF.STATh.FL.US 
LHCA results 5-7 Days 

AHCA 850-4124503 
TCN: 70CA360033040561..40562 

_______________________ 

$120.00 

Amount Received $120.00 

Tnnsmittath are good 1cr 6 months ]Lcom Not responsible for results after 6 months 

12/06/2012 FDLE Level I / Board of Pharmacy 2 60.00 120.00 

Total 



DEC-01-2012 FR] 11:52 AlA CAPITAL ONE 1IEALI FAX No. SUb 

Capital One Health Cam Corp 
2500 NW 79 Ave. SuIte 251 
boralFkirkla 33122 
305-477-6507 
305-477-6618 Fax 1 2012 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #0-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 221399 
1-650-245-4292 

Re: Stock Transfer 
License Number 124200 
La Perla acy Inc 
11180 West Flagler Street 
Suite 2 
MiarniFl 32174 

Dear a Department of Pharmacy 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you the Florida Board of Pharmacy that 
there has been a change in the stockholders of La e Pharmacy c. 
effective November34 2012. The ownership of the shares s as follows: 

AngelA Sanchez 100% of the shams of the corporation 
Address: 69 Suffolk Ave 

Illaleab i 33012 11969 
Social Socially number 694-83-0873 
President 

Vice President Zuzette be La Rua 
Address: 1305 West 46 Sfl.t, 232 

Hialeah Fl 33012 
DOB 07/06/1980 
Social Securl 4 Number 594-53-5820 

• WnPmsldent 

Please note this chenge (or your records. Should you have any questions please 
contact me immediately. 

Attach copy of the Articles of Coipcration, Bill of Sale 

Copy of the Fingerprints for both president/vice president 

12/10 B9Vd bfl 



ARTflCLES OF AMENDMENT 
TO 

ARTIICLES OF ION 
OF 

LA PERLA PHARMACY INC 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 607.1 006 of the Florida Statutes, the above referenced 
corporation hereby adopts the following Articles of Amendment to its Articles of Incorporation: 

1. The date of the filing of the Articles of Incorporation of was March 10, 2009 and 
assigned document number P000022385. 

, The following Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation was adopted by the 
corporation: 

Maria Bohbot is hereby deleted as Director and President. 

Angel Alejandro Sanchez of 11180 West Flagler Street, Suite 2, Miami, Florida 33174 is 
hereby added as Director, President and Secretary. 

CHANGE OF REGISTERED AGENT/REGISTERED OFFICE: 
Angel Alejandro Sanchez of 11180 West Flagler Street, Suite 2, Miami, Florida 33174 

shall be added as Registered Agent/Registered Office. 

Maria Isabel Bohbot shall be deleted as the Registered Agent/Registered Office. 

The Amended Articles and each Amendment described herein were approved by the 
shareholders. The number of votes cast for the amendments by the shareholders were sufficient for 
approval. The Amendments are hereby adopted and shall be effective as of the date written below. 

The Amended Articles were adopted by a majority of the Corporation's Directors and 
Shareholders on the date written below. - 

SIGNED, this day ofNovember, 2012. 

ALEJA1$bRO , President 

I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. I further 
agree to comply with the provisions of all statutes relative to the proper and complete performance of 
my duties, and I am familiar with and accept the obligation of my position as registered agent. Or, this 
document is being filed merely to refleàt a change in the registered offlee address, I hereby confirm that 
the corporation has been not /led in writing of this change. / 

/ 

ANCEL ALEJANDkO SANCHEZ 



ADDENDUM TO 

LA PERLA PHARMACY 

STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

THIS ADDENDUM TO STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into 

this ofNovember, 2012 by and between Maria Isabel Bohbot, herethafter referred to as 

the "Seller," and Angel Alejandro Sanchez, hereinafter referred to as the "Buyer." 

RECITALS: 

A. The Seller and Buyer entered into a stock Purchase Agreement for the sale and 

purchase of La Perla Phannacy, Inc. ("La Perla Pharmacy") is a Florida corporation in good 

standing. 

B. The Seller and Buyer desire to add additional terms to the Stock Purchase 

Agreement as set forth herein. 

THEREFORE, iii consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good 

and valuablccan�ideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

Federal and State Licenses and Regulatory . 
(a) Florida State Pharmacy . Buyer hereby agrees to prepare and submit all 

required notifications and applications relative to the La Perla Pharmacy's pharmacy pennit and 

license in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby. Said notifications and applications 

shall be submitted by Buyer within 10 days from the date of this Addendum and a copy of such 

shall be simultaneously provided to Seller and Seller's attorney. 

,' 7' 



(b) Medicare of this transaction in 

accordance with Federal law. Said notifications shall be submitted by Buyer within 10 days from 

the date of this Addendum and a copy of such shall be simultaneously provided to Seller and 

Seller's attorney. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 

first above written. 

Witnesses: Seller: 

Maria Isabel Bohbot 

' Alejandro anchez 

CORP\t 322711.2 

4 

/ I ) ii .,// / / /." 



BILL OF SALE 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that MARIA ISABEL BOHBOT, party of 
the first part and as sole stockholders of LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC., a Florida corporation, in 
consideration of the sum of Ten and NO/I00 ($10.00) Dollars, lawful money of the United States 
paid to him by ANGEL ALEJANDRO SANCHEZ, party of the second part, the receipt whereof is 
hereby acknowledged, has/have granted, bargained, sold, transferred and delivered, and by these 
presents does/do grant, bargain, sell, transfer and deliver unto the said party of the second part, 
his/her/their executors, administrators and assigns, tinder the terms and conditions of the Stock 
Purchase Agreement, the following goods and chattels: 

100 Shares representing 100% ownership interest and stock in and to LA PERLA 
PHARMACY, INC., a Florida corporation. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the said party of the second part, his/her/their 
executors, administrators and assigns forever. 

AND I/we do, for ourselves, heirs, executors and administrators, covenant to and with the 
said party of the second part, his/her/their executors, administrators, covenant to and with the said 
party of the second part, our executors, administrators and assigns, that we are the lawful owners of 
the said goods and chattels; that they are free from all encumbrances; that we have good right to sell 
the same aforesaid, and that we will warrant and de fend the sale of the said property. goods and 
chattels hereby made. unto the said patty of the second part, our executors, administrators and 
assigns againstthc Lawful claims and demandcofafl persons whomsoever. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I/We have hereunto set my/our hand and seal this th day of 
November, 2012. 

Signed sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 

MARIA ISABEL BOHBOT 

N 



I hereby tender my resignation as Director and President of La Perla Pharmacy, Inc., a Florida 
corporation, as well as any other office or position with said company, effective November 30, 2012. 

DATED AS OF: November 30, 2012. 

(/7 

MAMA ISABEL BOHBOT 

A 



CLOSING STATEMENT 

SELLER Maria Isabel Bohbot 
BUYER : Angel Alejandro Sanchez 
CLOSING DATE : November 30, 2012 
DESCRIPTION : 100% Sale of Stock of La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. 

Buyer Seller 
Purchase Price $ 70,000.00 $70,000.00 

Sales Commission S 0 

TOTAL CASH FROM BUYER TO SELLER AT CLOSING: $70,000.00 

I have carefiully reviewed the settlement statement and to the best of my knowledge and belief it is 
a true statement of all the receipts and disbursements made on my account or by me in this 
transaction. I further certify that I have received fill payment from the buyer and a copy of this 
settlement statement. 

SELLER: 

/ 

Dated: 

12 

Maria Isabel Bohbot 

BUYER: 

_______________________________ 

Dated: t , 2012 
/ 7 



Notice to Parties in Regulated Health Care Transactions 
La Per/a Pharmacy, Inc. 

Please be advised that most transactions involving health care facilities in the State of Florida are 
subject to various notice requirements. Additionally, if the facility has a Medicare provider 
number, any changes in the officers and/or owners must be reported to Medicare within 30 days 
of said change. There are additional notice requirements for pharmacies related to the DEA. It 
is imperative that these notices be completed in an accurate fashion and reported to the proper 
agencies. 

You are hereby notified that your failure to report these transactions as required by state 
and federal law may lead to various administrative remedies that include license 
suspension and termination of your provider number and even criminal prosecution. 

If you have any questions as to the reporting requirement specifically related to your transaction, 
please ask your attorney before closing. 

THIS OFFICE DOES NOT PERFORM POST TRANSACTION LICENSING AND 
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP SERVICES. IT IS THE BUYER'S AND SELLER'S 
RESPONSIBILITY TO NOTIFY THE APPROPRIATE GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 
OR BODIES. 

I attest that I have read and understand the reporting requirements for my regulated transaction 
and understand the penalties for failing to comply with state and federal reporting requirements. 

Dated day ofNovernber, 2012 by: 

/ A 
BUYER 

/ 
( / / 7 

SANCHEZ 

— 

SELLER MARIA ISABEL BOHBOT 



INUTES OF MEETING OF 

BOARD OF THE SHAREHOLDER AND DIRECTORS OF 

LA PERLA PHARMACY, INC. 

The meeting of Shareholders and Directors was held as of November 30, 2012 at 4:00 P.M. 

The following were present: Maria Isabel Bohbot, the sole shareholder and director of the 
company and Angel Alejandro Sanchez the purchaser of the Company. 

The secretary then presented a Stock Purchase Agreement between Maria Isabel Bohbot and 
Angel Alejandro Sanchez, dated November 30, 2012. 

RESOLVED, that the Stock Purchase Agreement is hereby ratified and the contemplated stock 
transfer approved and it is ordered that the Agreement be appended to the minutes of this meeting and 
that, upon Closing, the Shares in the name of Maria Isabel Bohbot be cancelled and that Shares 
representing all of the outstanding interest in the company be issued to Angel Alejandro Sanchez. 

The secretary then presented a resignation executed by Maria Isabel Bohbot the Director and 
President of the company dated November 30, 2012. 

RESOLVED that the resignation of the Director and Officer listed above is hereby approved and 
accepted and that the resignation as executed by said officer and director be appended to these minutes. 

The chairman then stated that this meeting would be considered as the annual thèeting of members 
and to transact such business as may properly come before the meeting. 

The chairman of the meeting called for the election of directors. The following person was 
nominated: Angel Alejandro Sanchez. 

No further nominations being made nominations were closed and a vote was taken. 

After the vote had been counted, the chairman declared that the foregoing named nominee was 
elected Director of the company. 

The chairman of the meeting called for the election of the officers. The following person was 
nominated: Angel Alejandro Sanchez, President and Secretary. 

No ifirther nominations being made nominations were closed and a vote was taken. 

Afier the vote had been counted, the chairman declared that the foregoing named nominee was 
elected President and Secretary of the company. 



The chairman then stated that the newly elected director and officer would assume his 
responsibilities immediately, and that this meeting would be considered as the annual meeting of 
shareholders and directors and to transact such business as should properly come before the meeting. 

To facilitate the business of the Company, it was thrther RESOLVED that Angel Alejandro 
Sanchez, as the President, be authorized as the sole signatory on the bank account in the name of the 
Company. 

Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, it was, 

RESOLVED, that the signing of these minutes shall constitute fill ratification thereof and waiver 
of notice of the meeting by the signatories. 

There being no further business before the meeting, on motion duly made, seconded and can-led, 
the meeting was adjourned. 

Witnesses: 

X 
/ - , 

4' / / 
\ 

m' 
/ 

MABJA ISABEL BOHBOT 

,- 

SANCHEZ 

\- 





wo ce,'t$&e anel 
à'reoocaiØ 1 
to on 5 
named 

x 

rQk6fflkWLt 

0 
uaaro 1 



a.' 4 



N
orice; T

H
E

S
IG

N
A

T
O

R
E

O
F

T
H

!S
A

S
S

IG
N

M
E

N
T

 
M

U
S

T
 C

O
R

R
E

SPO
N

D
 

E
N

A
M

E
A

S
 

U
PO

N
 

In SV
SE

rPA
R

flC
U

L
lg w

!rK
O

tJr4LT
5R

A
 lIO

N
 

O
R

 E
N

LA
R

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
R

A
N

Y
C

H
A

N
G

E
 

W
/IA

 T
SO

E
I/E

R
. 



/ 

u 

QUALIFICATION(S): 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

1 

. 

STATE OF FLORIDA - 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DIVISION OF MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE 

fl DATE UCENSE NO. CONTROL NO. 

I 
0810812009 PH .24200 485 5 

The PHARMACY 
named below has met all iequiremerits of 
the laws and rules of the state of Florida. 
Expiration Date. FEBRUARY 28, 2011 
LA PERLA PHARIVIACY,ThC 
11180 WEST FLAGLER ST 
STE 2 , FL 33174 

) 

0 

/ 

> 
•1 * 

* L 

4 
S 

7 
. 

GOVERNOR /y I 

Vianonte 
rSTA1-ESURGEONGENERA&4n. 

—C 



- 

LICENSECLASS F 

,. 
I LAKESHORE 
cE Ft. 

sa r' 



LA PERLA PHARMACY 

STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this YJ day of November, 2012 by and 

between Maria Isabel Bohbot, hereinafter referred to as the "Seller," and Angel Alejandro 

Sanchez, hereinafter referred to as the "Buyer." 

RECITALS: 

A. La Perla Pharmacy, Inc. ("La Perla Pharmacy") is a Florida corporation in good 

standing. 

B. The Seller owns 100 shares of common capital stock Of La Perla Pharmacy, 

comprising one-hundred 'percent (100%) of all of the issued and outstanding stock of La Perla 

C. The Seller desires to one hundred percent(I0O%) of the shares of the stock and 

t]ie Buyer desires to purchase the same (hereafler referred to as the "Stock") at Closing. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good 

and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

1. SALE OF . Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Seller agrees 

to sell the Stock to the Buyer. In connection therewith, the Seller agrees to deliver the Stock to 

the Buyer at Closing, with all certificates duly endorsed to the Buyer, free and clear of all liens, 

claims and encumbrances, and ready for transfer. The Seller ifirther agrees to execute such 

additional documents and take such additional actions as the Buyer deems necessary to perfect 

) 



the Buyer's title to Stock, both before and after Closing. In turn, the Buyer agrees to tender 

payment of the Purchase Price in accordance with this Agreement. 

2. PURCHASE . The purchase price (the "Purchase Price") to be paid for the 

Stock shall be the sum of Seventy Thousand ($70,000.00) Dollars. The parties hereto 

acknowledge that the Purchase Price accurately represents the current fair market value of the 

Stock. The Purchase Price shall be paid on the Closing Date. 

3. EXECUTION AND CLOSING . The Execution date shall be on the date the 

last party has executed this Agreement. The Closing Date under this Agreement shall be November 

30, 2012. 

4. CLOSING . All documents relative to Closing shall be executed 

at Closing. 

5. REPRESENTATIONS AND . The Buyer and the Seller make 

the following representations and warranties to each other: 

(a) . The recitals in the preamble to this Agreement are true and are 
hereby incorporated in this Agreement as representations of the Seller. 

(b) e. The Seller has good, absolute, and marketable title to the Stock, free 
from all liens, claims, and encumbrances. The Seller has the unfettered right, power, and 
authority to sell all of the Stock pursuant to this Agreement. Delivery of the Stock to the Buyer 
as contemplated by this Agreement will vest unencumbered title to the Stock in the Buyer. 

(c) . La Perla Pharmacy has filed all required federal, state, and local 
tax returns and has ffilly paid all federal, state, and local taxes due. In the event La Perla 
Pharmacy incurs a tax deficiency related to any events that occurred prior to the Closing, 
irrespective of when the same was determined or assessed, the Seller shall be responsible for any 
such deficiency. In the event La Perla Pharmacy incurs a tax deficiency related to any events 
that occurred subsequent to the Closing, irrespective of when the same was determined or 
assessed, the Buyer shall be responsible for any such deficiency. 

(d) Litigation and . There is no litigation, arbitration, or other legal, 
judicial, administrative, or governmental action currently pending against La Perla Pharmacy. 
There are no other pending claims, asserted or unasserted, against La Perla Pharmacy. Seller is 
not aware of any facts that may give rise to any such proceedings, actions, or claims. 

. 

1.2 



(e) Compliance with Applicable La Perla Pharmacy has complied with 
all applicable federal, state and local laws. 

(0 Compliance with Corporate . La Perla Pharmacy has complied 
with all provisions of its articles of incorporation, bylaws and resolutions in the operation and 
conduct of its business. 

(g) Authority of Seller and its signatory hereunder have full power and 
authority to enter into this Agreement and consummate the transaction contemplated thereby. 

(h) Corporate . The books and records of La Perla Pharmacy are 
complete and accurate and reflect all transactions of La Perla Pharmacy that properly should 
have been set forth therein. 

(i) Full . Seller has made full disclosure to Buyer of all material 
facts relating to the operation of La Perla Pharmacy and has provided full access to all property, 
books, records, contracts, and documents of La Perla Pharmacy. 

Ci) . La Rena Pharmacy is the holder of any and all licenses and 
authorizations currently necessary for operation thereof 

(k) Medicare Provider . La Perla Pharmacy is authorized to bill Part D 
under private insurance for Medicare patients. 

(I) . The assets of La Perla Pharmacy are the licenses to operate a 
pharmacy, inventory and good sold at the pharmacy. All assets are free and clear of any and all 
liens and encumbrances. 

(m) Other . La Perla Pharmacy has no outstanding liabilities. 

(n) Current . The lease at the premises occupied by the pharmacy is is 
current and in good standing. 

is paid and s 
6.- . All notices to be givenunder this Agreement shall be in writing and 

sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. 

7. ENTIRE . The parties acknowledge and represent that this 

Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties and that there are no other 

agreements between them as to the matters described herein. 

:2 3 

A- 
CORP\1322711.2 



S. . The parties agree that this Agreement shall be deemed 

made and entered into in the State of Florida and shall be governed and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Florida. 

9. . 
(a) Seller hereby agrees to indemnifsi and hold La Perla Pharmacy and Buyer 

harmless from any and all liability, loss, damages, claims, demands, costs and judgments, 

including without limitation all costs of defense, litigation, and attorney's fees (collectively 

"Damages"), asserted against, imposed upon, or incurred by La Perla Pharmacy and Buyer, by 

reason of, resulting from, arising in connection with or due to (a) any and all misrepresentations, 

breaches of warranty, or the uiflllment of any agreement, covenant or other obligation on the 

part of Seller under this Agreement or any agreement, instrument or documents related hereto 

including, without limitation, under Section 5 (b) any conduct, action or inaction on the 

part of the Seller l-ring or arising from or relating to, or any event or circumstance relating 

to, the operation, management or ownership of La Perla Pharmacy on or prior to the Closing 

Date; and (c) any and all liabilities of the La Perla Pharmacy of any nature including without 

limitation any tax, environmental, or other regulatory liabilities whether accrued, absolute, 

contingent or otherwise, and whether known or unknown, existing at the Closing Date. 

(b) The Buyer and La Perla Pharmacy, pursuant to a corporate resolution 

approving the transaction contemplated hereby, agree to indemnif3' and hold the Seller harmless 

from any and all liability, loss, or damages, including all costs of defense, litigation, and 

attorneys fees, resulting from any claims, demands, costs and judgments arising from (a) any 

and all misrepresentations, breaches of warranty, or the nonfiilfillment of any agreement, 

covenant or other obligation on the part of Buyer or La la Pharmacy under this Agreement or 

1 -9 4 

3227 1.2 



any agreement, instrument or documents related hereto (b) any conduct, action or inaction on tile 

part of the Buyer or La Perla Pharmacy occurring or arising from or relating to, or any event or 

circumstance relating to, the operation, management or ownership of La Perla Pharmacy after the 

Closing Date; and (c) any and all liabilities of La Peria Pharmacy arising after the Closing Date 

provided that such liabilities do not arise from events, acts or omissions occurring prior to the 

Closing Date. 

10. . This Agreement and the terms thereof shall remain 

confidential and shall not be disclosed to anyone for any purpose whatsoever without the written 

consent of the parties hereto. 

11. REPRESENTATION AND TRANSACTION . Each party shall bear their 

own legal fees and costs in connection with this transaction. The Seller hereby acknowledges and 

understands that the law firm of Manuel Lopez & Associates, P.A. is solely and exclusively 

acting as counsel to the Buyer in the transaction contemplated hereby and ftrther acknowledges 

and understands that neither said attorneys nor any other attorney or law firm utilized by the 

Buyer serves as legal counsel to tile Seller in the subject transaction. 

12. . The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the closing of the 

transaction contemplated hereby. 

13. ATTORNEY'S . In the event of any legal action to enforce the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement or related to a breach thereof; the prevailing party shall be entitled 

to recover all costs of such actions, including attorney's fees and paralegal fees and all other legal 

expenses and costs at all pre-suit, trial and appellate levels. 

14. . Any and all receivables from sales prior to the Closing date are 

the property of the Seller after payment of all costs and expenses associated with the sales. 

/ / 7 
5 

CO RP\1 3 22 7 11.2 



Buyer shall pay to Seller all monies received from theses receivables within 3 days bfclearânce 

of funds. 

15. PATIENT . As of the Closing Date, Buyer shall become the custodian of 

all patient records for all patients who received goods or services from the Pharmacy at any time up to 

and including the Closing Date. Buyer shall maintain such patient records for a period of at least 

seven (7) years OR LONGER AS REQUIRED BY LAW, following the Closing Date and shall 

provide Seller with access to same during normal business hours upon receipt of a written request for 

access from Seller. Buyer shall at all times keep Seller informed as to the location of the patient 

records and shall immediately noti& Seller in writing in the event there is a change in such location. 

In maintaining the patient records, Buyer will comply with the Standards for Privacy of Individually 

Identifiable Health Information, 45 C.F.R., Parts 160 through 164 and the Security Standards for the 

Protection of Electronic Protected Health 45 C.F.R., Part 164 (collectively the "HIPAA 

Regulations") and agrees not to use or further disclose any protected health information as defined in 

42 U SC Section 1 320d ("Protected Health Information") concerning Seller's patients other than as 

permitted by this Agreement and the requirements of HIPAA or regulations promulgated thereunder. 

Buyer will implement appropriate safeguards to prevent the inappropriate use or disclosure of 

Protected Health Information. 

16. ADDITIONAL . Buyer arid Sellers agree to execute in an expeditious 

manner all instruments in writing and to do all other things necessary to effectuate the purpose of this 

Agreement. 

1 7. ADDITIONAL . Buyer and seller agree that Seller Maria Isabel Bohbot, 

upon closing, will return for cancellation to the DEA her certificate of registration and that this 

transaction is being consummated with the understanding that La Perla Pharmacy will discontinue 

:7 6 

CORP\1 322711.2 



business altogether with respect to controlled substances. Buyer understands and agrees that Seller 

will have no responsibility to Buyer, nor to any other person regarding future efforts by Buyer or 

anyone other person regarding any future efforts by Buyer or anyone else to obtain a DEA 

registration, or nay attempts by La Perla Pharmacy to resume any business activity related to 

controlled substances. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 

first above written. 

Witnesses: Seller: 

/' 
,:.• ; - 

(2 (c'2 i' 
V 

Buyer: 
I / 

1 

7 

Angel Alejandro 

/ 

/ /i 

/( 
' 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307506 

FRANAKO PHARMACY INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 
400 SOUTH DIXIE HWY SUITE 17 
LAKE WORTH, FL 33460 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 

to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 

Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/,'Board Executive Dir ctor 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX : (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Missiom Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

state, county & community efforts. 
Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nalion 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201307506 

FRANAKO PHARMACY INC, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 
P 0 BOX 222821 
WEST PALM BCH, FL 33422 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 

on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 

to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 

Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 

earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 

that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 

case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 

been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

oard Executive Di ector 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrnentofHealth 

PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



HEALTH 
Rick Scott 

Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

or all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
FROM: Christopher A. Jurich, Assistant General Counsel 
RE: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts Cfr- If/fl 
SUBJECT: DOH v. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 

DOH Case Number 2013-07506 

DATE: December 17, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed an the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 

Subject's Address of P 0 Box 222821 
Record: West Palm Bch, FL 33422 
Enforcement Address: 400 South Dixie Hwy 

Suite 17 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 

Subject's License No: 25600 Rank: PH 

Licensure File No: 18526 

Initial Licensure Date: 7/26/2011 

Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current PRN Contract: No 

Florida Department of Health • www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit TWITTEftHeaIthyFIA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1 701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentoft-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row- Suite 105 YOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 - FAX 850/245-4684 



Allegations: Count I: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating 
Rule 64B16-28.1081, F.A.C. 

Count II: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating 
Rule 64B16-28.140(4), F.A.C. under Rule 64B16-27.700, 
F.A.C. 

Count I: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating 
Rule 64B16-28. 140(3)(d), F.A.C. 

Count IV: Section 465.023(1)(c), F.S. (2012), by violating 
Rule 64B16-28.110, F.A.C. 

Prior Discipline: None 
Probable Cause Panel: September 5, 2013 

Debra Glass & Jeffrey Mesaros 
Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: DOH/ISU West Pa!m Beach 

Materials Submitted: Memorandum to the Board 

Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues 
Administrative Complaint 
Motion to Assess Costs 

Exhibit A — Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended 
Exhibit 1 — Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2 — Itemized Costs by Complaint 

Election of Rights 

Board Notification Letter 

PCP Memorandum 

CAJ/crl 

Florida Department of Health .com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosewthn SeMces Unit TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 0-65' Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofl-lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fidoh 
PHONE: 85012454444 • 



Disciplinary Guidelines: 
Count : Minimum of $500 fine and 12 hours Laws Rules or MPJE to a maximum of 1 year 
probation and $2,000 fine. 

Count : Minimum of $500 fine for possession and $1,000 fine for dispensing to a maximum 
of revocation. 

Count : Minimum of $1,000 fine to a maximum of revocation. 
Count : Minimum of $1,000 fine to a maximum of revocation. 

PRELIMINARY CASE REMARKS: IN FORMAL HEARING 

On or about April 30, 2013, the Department conducted a routine inspection of the Respondent. 
During the course of this inspection, the following deficiencies were noted: pharmacy hours 
were not posted, expired medications were found in active stock, daily logs were missing 
pharmacists' signatures, and compounding logs were not properly maintained. 

Florida Department of Health www.FioridasHeaith.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit IITER:HealthyFLk 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin . Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 FACEBOOK:FLDepartrentotHealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row - Suite 105 VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 850/245-4444 FAX /2454684 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-07506 

Franako Pharmacy, Inc., 

Respondent. 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, by and through its undersigned counsel, 

and moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a Final Order in the above- 

styled cause on a date and time that has been determined and noticed by 

the Board. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner would state the following: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. The Department, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline the Respondent's license to practice as a 

Pharmacy thereby affecting the Respondent's substantial interests. 



2. On or about September 19, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint via Respondent's address of record with the 

Department of Health. The Department, by serving the Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint, provided the Respondent written notice of its 

decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice as a 

Pharmacy. 

3. The Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed issues of material fact to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been advised, by a copy of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case shall be furnished to the Board to 

establish a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Administrative Complaint. 



WHEREFORE, the parties respectfully request the Board of 

Pharmacy, after allowing the Respondent the opportunity to present oral 

and/or written evidence in mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter 

a Final Order imposing whatever discipline upon the Respondent's license 

that the Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Christopher A. Jurich 'c" 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0099014 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8174 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: @flhealth.gov 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this I day of 

December , 2013, to: Attn. Mr. Afrani, Franako Pharmacy, Inc., 

400 South Dixie Highway, Suite 17, Lake Worth, Florida 33460. 

Christophe A. Jurich 0' 
Assistant General Counsel 

1 



• . 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

. CASE NO. 2013-07506 

FRANAKO PHARMACY, INC., 

RESPONDENT. 

____________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, Franako Pharmacy, ., and in support thereof 

alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Administrative Complaint, 

Respondent was a permitted community pharmacy within the state of 

Florida, having been issued permit number PH 25600. 



3. Respondent's address of record is Post Office Box 222821, 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33422. Respondent's physical address is 400 

South Dixie Highway, Suite 17, Lake Worth, Florida 33460. 

4. On or about April 30, 2013, a Department inspector conducted 

an inspection of Respondent at 400 South Dixie Highway, Suite 17, Lake 

Worth, Florida 33460. 

5. On or about April 30, 2013, the Department's inspector noted 

the following deficiencies: 

a. Pharmacy hours not posted in violation of Rule 64B16- 

28.1081, Florida Administrative Code; 

b. Expired, medications found in active stock in violation of 

Rule 64B16-28.110, Florida Administrative Code; 

c. Daily Fogs missing pharmacists' signatures in violation of 

Rule 64B16-28.140(3)(d), Florida Administrative Code; 

and/or 

d. Compounding lags not properly maintained in violation of 

Rule 64B16-28.140(4), Florida Administrative Code. 

I V. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 2 

Case No. 2013-07506 
AC — PH, inspedton violations 



. 
COUNT ONE 

6. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraph one (1) 

through five (5), as if fully set forth herein. 

7. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

8. Rule 64B16-28.1081, Florida Administrative Code, provides, in 

pertinent part, that a sign in block letters not less than one inch in height 

stating the hours the prescription department is open each day shall be 

displayed either at the main entrance of the establishment or at or near 

the place where prescriptions are dispensed in a prominent place that is in 

clear and unobstructed view. 

9. Respondent failed to ensure that a sign stating the hours was 

displayed in a dear and unobstructed view either at the main entrance of 

the establishment or at or near the place where prescriptions are 

dispensed. 

DOH V. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 3 

Case No. 2013-07506 
AC — PH, Inspedlon violations 



. . 
10. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.1081, 

Florida Administrative Code, by failing to ensure a sign in block letters not 

less than one inch In height stating the hours the prescription department 

is open each day was displayed either at the main entrance of the 

establishment or at or near the place where prescriptions are dispensed In 

a prominent place that is in clear and unobstructed view. 

COUNT TWO 

11. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraph one (1) 

through five (5), as if fully set forth herein. 

12. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

13. Rule 64316-28.140(4), Florida Administrative Code, sets forth 

the requirements for maintaining a written record for each batch/sub-batch 

of a compounded product under the provisions of Rule 64B16-27.700, 

EA.C. 

DOH V. rfanako macy, Inc. 4 

Case No. 2013-07506 
AC — PH, violations 



14. Respondent failed to properly maintain a written record of the 

compounded products when the records failed to note the lot numbers, the 

expiration dates, and the registered pharmacist's certification. 

15. Based on the fbregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.140(4), 

Florida Administrative Code, by failing to ensure that the written record for 

each batch/sub-batch of a compounded product under Rule 64B16-27.700, 

F.A.C. included all the required information. 

COUNT THREE 

16. Petitioner realleges and Incorporates paragraph one (1) 

through five (5), as if fully set forth herein. 

17. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

18. Rule 64B16-28.140(3)(d), Florida Administrative Code, provides 

that each individual pharmacist who dispenses or refills a prescription drug 

order shall verify that the data indicated on the daily hard-copy printout is 

DON V. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 5 

Case No. 2013-07506 
AC — PH, InspecUon violations 



correct, by dating and signing such document in the same manner as 

signing a check or legal document within seven days from the date of 

dispensing. 

19. Respondent failed to properly maintain a daily log when 

Respondent's daily logs were missing the pharmacists' signatures. 

20. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16- 

28.140(3)(d), Florida Administrative Code, by failing to ensure that each 

individual pharmadst who dispenses or refills a prescription drug oltier 

verify that the data indicated on the daily hard-copy printout is correct, by 

dating and signing such document in the same manner as signing a check 

or legal document within seven days from the date of dispensing. 

COUNT FOUR 

21. Petitioner realleges and incorporates paragraph one (1) 

through five (5), as if lkilly set forth herein. 

22. Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), provides that 

the board may revoke or suspend the permIt of any pharmacy permittee 

and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any pharmacy 

V. Franako Pharmacy, tnc. 6 

Case No. 2013-07506 
AC — PH, Inspethon vlo(abons 



. 
permittee who has violated any of the requirements of Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes or any of the rules of the Board of Pharmacy. 

23. Rule 64B16-28.11O, Florida Administrative Code, states persons 

qualified to do so shall examine the stock of the prescription department 

of each pharmacy at a minimum interval of four months, and shall remove 

all deteriorated pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticals which bear upon the 

container an expiration date which date has been reached, and under no 

drcumstances will pharmaceuticals or devices which bear upon the 

container an expiration date which has been reached be sold or dispensed 

to the public. 

24. Respondent faIled to ensure the removal of deteriorated 

pharmaceutical, or pharmaceuticals which bear upon the container an 

expiration date which has been reached from the stock. 

25. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated Section 

465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.11O, 

Florida Administrative Code, by failing tO ensyre that deteriorated 

pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticals which bear upon the container an 

expiration date which date has been reached were removed from stock. 

0011 v. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 7 

Case No. 2013-07506 
AC — PH, Inspedlon violations 



WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, Issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

______ 

day of 2013. 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

State S g n General and Secretary of Health 

ster 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 0092743 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

NE 
PCP: September 5, 2013 
PCP Members: Glass and Mesaros 

DOH v. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 8 

Case , 2013-07506 
AC — PH, Inspection violations 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK J4ngeCSaniIers 
DATE SEP 0 5 7013 





STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2013-07506 

Franako Pharmacy, Inc., 

Respondent. 

/ 
MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH SECTION ) 
COMES NOW, the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves theBoard of Pharmacy for the entry of a 

Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the investigation 

and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 456.072(4), 

Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or after 



July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or discipline 
imposed through final order, or citation, entered 
on or after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any 
practice act, the board, or the department when 
there is not board, shall assess costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution of the case. Such 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution 
include, but are not limited to. salaries and 
benefits of costs related to the time 
spent by the attorney and other Dersonnel working 
on the case. and any other expenses incurred by 
the department for the case. The board, or the 
department when there is no board, shall 
determine the amount of costs to be assessed 
after its consideration of an affidavit of itemized 
costs and any written obiections . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted in 

costs in the total amount of $1,195.60 based on the following itemized 

statement of costs: 

***** Cost to Date 
Hours Costs 

complaint: 1 $60.39 
Investigation: 1 $550.24 

5.50j $584.97j 

Compliance: 
f 

0.00 

Sub Total: 
[ 15.2011 $1,195.60 

Expenses to 
Date: 

Prior Amount: I 
Total Costs to 
Date: 95.60 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $610.63 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. Should the Respondent file written objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of the 

costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that the 

Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $610.63 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other 

discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

3 



WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board 

of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent 

in the amount of $610.63. 

DATED this 18 day of December , 2013. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Christopher A. Jurich 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0099014 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444, ext. 8174 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: @flhealth.gov 

4 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing Motion to Assess Cost has been provided by U.S. mail this 

of December , 2013, to: Attn: Mr. Afrani, Franako 

Pharmacy, Inc., 400 South Dixie Highway, Suite 17, Lake Worth, Florida 

33460. 

Christopher A. Jurich 
Assistant General Counsel 

5 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
DOH. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 1 Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number 2013-07506 (Department of Health v. FRANAKO 
PHARMACY, INC.) are ONE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED NINETY- 
FIVE DOLLARS AND SIXTY CENTS ($1,195.60). 

6) The costs for DOH case number 2013-07506 (Department of Health v. 
FRANAKO PHARMACY, INC.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case number 2013-07506 
(Department of Health v. FRANAKO PHARMACY, INC.) are detailed 
in Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 
keep track of their time in six-minute increments (e.g., investigators 

I of2 



and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

Shane Walters, Affiant 

I 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me day 
by Shane Walters, who is personally known to me. 

2 of 2 

2013, 

Name of Notary Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 



rage i or i 

Complaint Cost Summary 
Complaint Number: 201307506 

Subject's Name: FRANMCO PHARMACY INC 

] 
Cost to Date 

] 
Hours Costs 

Complaint: i.ioIj 
Investigation: 1 $550.24! 

1 
! 5584.97 

0.00 so.ool 
********** 

(Sub Total: 15.20 S 1,195.60! 

Expenses to Date: 
[ I 

l 
Prior Amount: 

[ ] 
l 

Total Costs to Date: 
( ] 

195.601 

I- is 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.fl.us/IRMOOTIMETRAKICSDETL.ASP 12/2/2013 



D
iv

is
io

na
l 

C
 O

N
F 

ID
 E

N
 T

IA
L

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

uo
lil

y 
A

sn
ra

nc
e 

t\4
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
13

07
50

6 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
2/

02
/2

01
3 

P
ag

e 
I 

of
 2

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ot

rs
 

S
ta

ll 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

IC
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

1A
23

 
0.

50
 

$5
4.

90
 

$2
7.

45
 

05
/1

0/
20

13
 

78
 

IN
IT

IA
L 

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
A

l 
IS

 
0.

60
 

$5
4.

90
 

$3
2.

94
 

05
/1

3/
20

13
 

2 
O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
E

R
V

IS
O

R
Y

 D
U

T
IE

S
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
10

 
56

0.
39

 

II1
N

V
E

S
T

IC
A

T
IV

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 U
N

IT
 

I 

10
8 

1.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$7

6.
78

 
05

/1
7/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
10

8 
0.

70
 

$6
3.

98
 

$4
4.

79
 

05
/2

8/
20

 1
3 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 
W

IIO
8 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
06

/1
4/

20
13

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

10
8 

0.
80

 
$6

3.
98

 
$5

1.
18

 
06

/1
4/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

K
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

10
8 

3.
20

 
$6

3.
98

 
$2

04
.7

4 
06

/1
7/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

W
fl1

T
h 

0.
70

 
$6

3.
98

 
$4

4.
79

 
06

/1
8/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

10
8 

1.
00

 
$6

3.
98

 
$6

3.
98

 
06

/2
0/

20
13

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

8.
60

 
$5

50
.2

4 

IP
I4

O
S

IL
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

I-
IL

L9
2A

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

07
/0

8/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
F

IL
L9

2A
 

1.
30

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$1

38
.2

6 
07

/0
8/

20
13

 
28

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

O
R

R
E

V
IS

E
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

I4
LL

92
A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

09
/0

5/
20

13
 

68
 

S
IG

N
1N

O
 C

LO
S

IN
G

 O
R

D
E

R
S

, 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
S

 A
N

D
 R

.E
A

S
O

N
A

B
 

IL
L9

2A
 

0.
80

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$8

5.
08

 
09

/1
0/

20
13

 
79

 
S

T
IP

U
LA

T
IO

N
 

H
LL

92
A

 
0.

10
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
0.

64
 

09
/1

7/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

LE
P

H
O

N
E

 C
A

LL
S

 
O

4B
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
10

/0
7/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

C
A

S
E

F
IL

E
 

H
LL

IO
4B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

10
/0

7/
20

13
 

29
 

R
E

V
IE

W
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

O
4B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

10
/0

8/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
IO

4B
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
10

/0
8/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

A
LL

S
 

O
4B

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

10
/0

8/
20

13
 

60
 

M
IS

C
E

LL
A

N
E

O
U

S
 

10
41

3 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

10
/0

8/
20

13
 

36
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 L
E

T
T

E
R

 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



D
M

sk
.n

 o
l 

M
ed

ic
al

 O
uo

lil
v 

A
is

na
nc

e 

M
O

A
 

C
O

N
 F

 I
D

E
 N

T
IA

L
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
13

07
50

6 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
12

/0
2/

20
13

 
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 2

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

5.
50

 

$1
06

.3
5 

64
 

L
E

G
A

L
 A

D
V

IC
E

/D
IS

C
U

SS
IO

N
 -

 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
FF

IC
E

,D
E

PT
 S

T
A

FF
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
FF

: 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
- F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 

I 0
4A

 
H

 L
L 

10
4 

B
 

H
LL

I0
4B

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

$1
06

.3
5 

0.
30

 
0.

10
 

0.
20

 

0.
10

 

$1
06

.3
5 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

10
/1

6/
20

13
 

$1
0.

64
 

13
 

$2
1.

27
 

10
/1

8/
20

13
 

$1
0.

64
 

10
/1

8/
20

13
 

$5
84

.9
7 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
64

 
L

E
G

A
L

 A
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
SS

IO
N

 - 
B

O
A

R
D

 C
E

,D
E

PT
 S

T
A

FF
 O

R
 

G
E

N
 O

FF
: 



ci
 

**
* 

C
O

N
 F

ID
 E

N
 T

I A
L

 *
**

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

sw
ra

nc
e 

p\
4 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

It
em

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

12
/0

2/
20

13
 

P
ag

e 
I 

of
t 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

iC
od

e 
D

at
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 
C

od
e 

E
xp

en
se

C
od

ef
le

sc
rip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

l'o
ta

l 
E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
. F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 - 
ite

m
iz

ed
ex

pe
ns

e 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: i 
I Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
I . I 

state, county & community efforts. 
of all people in through integrated 

I John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH I 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Heaithiest State in the Nation 

December 18, 2013 

VIA U.S. MAIL 

Attn: Mr. Afrani 
Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 
Suite 17 

400 South Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth, Florida 33460 

Re: DON vs. Franako Pharmacy, Inc. 
DON Case Number: 2013-07506 

Dear Mr. Afrani/Franako Pharmacy, Inc.: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact executed by you on October 4, 2013 concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction 
because, by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary 
case. Since your client is requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, he is not 
admitting the facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, your client is agreeing not to 
contest these facts and to limit presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or 
extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for February 12, 2014 in Orlando, Florida. Please be advised your case will be 
set at the convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and your office will 
receive notification of the date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank you for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact this office at 850-245-4444, ext. 8174. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher A. Jurich 
Assistant General Counsel 

CAJ/crl 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit 

TWflTER:HeelthyFLA 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin s 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 
FACEBOOKFLDepartmentofHealth Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YOUTUBE: fldoh PHONE: 850/245-4444 • FAX 850/245-4683 



TO: 

FROM: 

MEMORANDUM OF PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION 

Department of 1-Iealth, Prosecution Services Unit 

Chair, Probable Cause Panel, Florida Board of Pharmacy 

DATE OF PCP: September 5, 2013 AGENDA ITEM: A-06 ..............S••• ..........••••••••• 
This matter came before the Probable Cause Panel on the above date. Having reviewed the complete 
investigative file, recommendations of the Department, and any information submitted by the Subject, and 

being otherwise fully advised in the premises, the panel finds that: 

x Probable cause exists and a formal complaint shall be filed for violation of 
statutes and rules, including but not limited to: 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 64B16-28.1O81, 
Florida Administrative Code; 

Section 465.023(1)(c), Florida Statutes (2012), by violating Rule 641316-28.140(4), Florida 
Administrative Code; 

Probable Cause was not found in this case 

In lieu of probable cause, issue letter of guidance 

Case requires expert review 

Case needs further investigation 
a) 
b) 

Upon reconsideration, dismiss 
other: 

1 Date 

RE: 

MEMBERS: 

Franako Pharmacy, ., (VF) 
Case No. 2013-07506 
Cynthia-Griffin, PharmD and Jeffrey Mesaros 

C, 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


CONFIDENTIAL : 
Franako Pharmacy, Inc 
400 South Dixie Hwy, Suite 17 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 

Dear Franako Pharmacy 

Case Number: 2013-07506 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the investigation was initiated after it was determined that you may have Violated the Act. 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or * call our office to schedule an interview. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain Confidential after the Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give u confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to yot. public. You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will b when the investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to information in the investigative file within 20 days of receipt. 

required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have by an attorney. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take tc because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Department of Health is 
people in Florida through intregrated state, 

questions please call me at (561) 275 8095. 
about our complaint process, please fill-out 
www.floridashealth com/mga/survey. . 
Sincerely, 

/ —9 1 ( 6-' 
Kevin Lapham 
Investigative Specialist t 

— .. — - tile MdLlQJI 

May 17, 2013 

You are not 
represented 
investigation 

to protect, promote & improve the heal couny and community efforts. If you h 
In addition, if you have any concerns o our Customer Concerns or Suggestion 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT 
FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 

PERMIT NUMBER 
25600 

DATE OF INSPECTION 
6/1512012 

DOING BUSINESS AS DEA NUMBER PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER 

SANFORD DDUCKMAN STREETADDRESS 
400 SOUTH DIXIE HWY SUITE IT 

TELEPHONE# EXT. 
551-588-0T07 

CITY COUNTY 
LAKE WORTH 60 

STATE/ZIP 
33460 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER LICENSE # 
27319 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT HOURS REGISTERED PHARMACIST/INTERN/TECHNICIAN LICENSE # 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday I. Kwame Kyerrnaten-Afrani PS35409 

Open 8 8 8 8 on cal on cal 6 2. Bruce Greenbarg P532836 

Close 8 8 8 12 oncal oncal 12 3. 

SATISFACTORY N/A YES NO 

I Rx department hours openS days for 40 hours perweek. 84816-28.1081, F.A.CJ : : 

2 Pharmacy techniclans.properiy identified and supervised. 64816-27.420. F.A.CJ . — — 

3 Pharmacist on duly when Rx department open. 64616-28.109, FAC.I 
: : — 

4 Propersigns dIsplayed. (465.025(7), F.S.] 64818-26.109(1). FAC.] (64616-28.1081, F.A.C.] 184916-28.1035. F.A.C.I 64916-27.1001. F.A.C.] — — 

5 A verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to the patient or the patients agent. (84816-27.820(l), F.A.C.] — — 

6 Prescription department has convenient sink/running water. 1), F.A.C.] 
— : 

7 PrescriptIon department dean and safe. 64816-28.102(4). F.A.C.] . — - 'A — 

8 Proper equipment end references as required. (64B16-28.102(5)(a), F.A.C.I — >( — 

O Medication properly labeled. (465.0255. F.S.1 64918-28.108, F.A.G.] — - >< - — 

10 Expired medications removed from the shelves. 64616-28.110, F.A.C.] — — 

11 COl Policy and Procedures and 4uerterty meetings. (766.101, F.S.J (64616-27.300, FAC.] 
: : — 

— 12 Board-approved Policy and Procedure implemented to prevent the fraudulent dispensing of controlled substances. 455.022(4). ES.] 

13 Prescrlptionshave the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacists. (893.04(1)(c) 6, F.S.] (84B18-28.140(3)(b). F..A.C.I : : 

14 Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64616-27.800. F.A.C.I — . . — 

15 All controlled substance prescriptions contain information requIred. 893.04. F.S.J — - )< - — 

18 Prescriptions for controlled substances are on counterfeIt-proof prescription pads or blanks purchased from a Deperthient-epproved vendor and the quantity and date 
meet the requirements of 456.42(2). F.S.I. 

17 PrescrIptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 1693.04(1 )(g). F.S.] 64B1 6-27.211. F.A.C.] — — 

18 Controlled substance inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for Inspection. 1693.OT(1)(a), F.S.] )( — — 

19 DEA 222 order forms property completed. (893.07. F.SJ — — 

20 Controlled substance records and Rx information in computersyslemis retrievable. 2ICFR 1306.22J 64616-28.140, F.A.C.] — — 

21 Controlled substance records maintained for 4 years. 465.022(123(b), ES.] — 

22 CertIfied daily log OR printout maintained. 21CFR ] 64816-26.140(3)(b). F.A,CJ 
' : - - — 

23 Pharmacy is reporting to law enforcement any instance of fraudulent prescriptions within 24 hours or dose of business on next business day of learning of instance. 
Reports indude all required Information. 1465.01 (3), F.S.I 

24 Record of theft or significant loss of all conb'oiled substances is being maintained and is being reported to the sheriff within 24 hours of discovery. 893.07(5), ES.] 485.015, F.S.] 

25 Pharmacy Is reporting to the POMP withIn 7 days of dispensing controlled substance. 893.055(4), F.S.] 

26 Pharmacy a retail pharmacy wholesaler permit is reporting sales to the Controlled Substance Reporting system monthly by the 20th of the following month. 
409.0121 (14), F.S.) 

27 Registered pharmacist properly prescñbing. 6461 6-27.21 0, F.A.C.I 

28 Compounding records properly maintained. 64B16-28.140(4). F.A.C.] 

29 Unit dose records properly maintained. 465.015(1)0), F.S.] (64616-28.118, F.A,C.I 

30 Pedigree records retrievable. 64F-1 2.01 2(3)(a)2., (d), r.A.C.J 
* Note: if establishment is engaged in parenteraventeral compounding! a separate inspection form should be completed. 

Remarks: Re inspection conducted with relief RPH Bruce Greenbarg PS32836 (provided by staffing agency Heaithcare Consultants) 
Upon entering RPh Greenbarg was not property identified. Advised that RPH name tags must be wom during working hours. 
#4: Pharmacy hours posted were posted in standard hours. (Note: Friday hours posted indicate "on Calr'. Re inspection was conducted on Friday. Pharmacy was open. 

Licenses were visible to the public 
#7: Upon entering Temperaturé'was posted at 70 degrees. 
#11: CDI minutes for 9/5/11, 1/5/12 and 4/9112 were seen and copies taken. 
#19: DEA 222 completed forms were not available. Per RPh Greenbarg they are stored in controtied substance safe which was not accessible at time of inspection. 
#22: Daily logs were completed and copies from 12 to 6114/12 were taken. 

#20:A controlled substance movement report from 4/6/12 to 6/15/12 was requested and provided for scheduled il-V. 

I have reed asd have had this inspoclion report arid the laws and regulatons cononnied herein explained, and do affirm that the infomiaffon given herein is ue and correct to the best of my lciowtedge. I have received a copy of 
the Lkessae 98 of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT Bruce Greenbarg APh 

FiIe# 18526 

lnsp# 115783 

ROUTINC 1WIGE Lt fl NEW Li NOT Li I 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY- CHAPTER 465.017, CHAPTER 893.09 PJ'JD CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 

FLORIDA DEPARThIFNT OF 

HEALT 

Institutional Representative 
INVS59 Reeised 5/12,12/11.10/11,9/11, 10/10,10/09,5/06.12102,12/00 

06-1 5-201 2 
Date Investigator/Sr. Pharmacist Signature 

ID wi95 

V. 3 
I 





STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE ISU 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

FLORmA DEPARTMENT 

DOH.S TAT E. F L U S/M QA 

CORPORATE NAME INSPECTION NUMBER 
FRANAKO PHARMACY INC 

TYPE OF PERMIT DATE OF INSPECTION 
2205 41612012 

DOING BUSINESS AS FILE NUMBER LICENSE U 

25600 

STREETADDRESS 
400 SOUTH DIXIE HWY SUITE 17 

TELEPHONE U EXTU 
561 5880707 

CITY COUNTY 
LAKE WORTH PALM BEACH 

/ZIP 
33460 

Remarks: 
UPON ENTERING THE RPH ON DUTY WAS NOT PROPERLY IDENTIFIED. 

#4: PHARMACY HOURS WRITTEN IN MILITARY HOURS. ADVISED TO CHANGE TO STANDARD HOURS FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC TO READ 

LICENSES NOT VISIBLE TO THE PUBLIC. ADVISED RPH THAT PUBLIC MUST BE ABLE TO READ LICENSES. 

#7: UPON ENTERING PHARMACY THE TEMPERATURE WAS 80 DEGREES. 
ADVISED THIS TEMPERATURE MAY COMPROMISE THE INTEGRITY OF THE MEDICATIONS. ADVISED TO ADDRESS. 

#11: ONLY 2 CQI MEETINGS HAVE BEEN HELD SINCE ThIS LICENSE WAS GRANTED IN JULY 2011. MEETINGS WERE HELD 9/5/il AND 1/5/12 AND 
BOTH INDICATED DUPLICATE MINUTES. ADVISED MEETINGS MUST BE HELD QUARTERLY AND RELATE TO ORES AND THEIR ACTIONS OF 
CORRECTION. 

#19: ELECTRONIC DEA 222 FORMS WERE NOT PROPERLY COMPLETED. 

#22: DAILY LOGS MISSING SIGNATURES SINCE 3/29/12 

**NOTE** 
THIS PHARMACY HAS HAD SEVERAL PHARMACY MANAGERS IN THE LASTS MONTH PERIOD INCLUDING RUBEN GARZON, (PS21325), BENJAMIN 
LEVY(PS47936), DAVID MACKARAY(P524599), EDWARD KATZ (PSi 0052) AND SANFORD DUCKMAN (PS27319). 

DAILY LOGS DO NOT INDICATE GARZON WORKED ON ANY DAYS. 
DAILY LOGS INDICATE DUCKMAN ONLY WORKED ON 10/24/11. 
DALIY LOGS INDICATE MACKARAY ONLY WORKED 3 DAYS ON 10/4,10/10 AND 9/19/2011 
DAILY LOGS DO NOT INDICATE LEVY WORKED ON ANY DAYS 
DAILY LOGS DO NOT INDICATE KATZ WORKED ON ANY DAYS 

AN OFFICAL RECEIPT WAS GIVEN TO KYEREMATEN-AFRANI FOR RECORDS REMOVED FOR COPYING. 
A REQUEST FOR PATIENT PROFILES WAS GIVEN AS WELL FOR SELECT RX'5 INDICATED ON THE OFFICIAL RECEIPT TO BE PROVIDED WITHIN 72 
HOURS. 

Page: Of: 

I have read and have had this inspection report and the laws and regulations concerned herein explained, and do affirm that the informathn given herein is and correct to the best of 
my knowledge. I have received a copy of the Licensee Bill of Rights. 

PRINT NAME OF RECIPIENT KWAME KYEREMATEN-AFRANI 

Institutional Representative 

1NV416 Revised 12/11,10/11.01/07,07/03 

04-06-2012 
Date 

ID wi95 

Investigator/sr. thgnature 



FILE# 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

iNVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
WWW.DOH STAT F. F US 

COMMUNITY PHARMACY 

INSPECTION#__________ JROUTIJIEDCKANGELOCD NDTOPEEATINODCRSnGEO'MIERDI 

INSPECTION AUTHORITY— CHAPTER 465.017! CHAPTER 893.09 AND CHAPTER 456, FLORIDA STATUTES 
Note; irestabllshment Is ennacad in leral/entorsi compounding, license mini so indicate and a saDarste inspection form should be comeieted 

NAME OF ESTABLIS PERMIT NUMBER EXPIRATION DATE DATE F IN 0 
DOING BUSINESS AS F 

p 

TELEPHONE NUMBER EXTENSrON 

$ ACUR S I CITY COUNTY ST ZIP /,4. tare iaoafl, Pm'm 64, P2. 337o'o 
DEA NUMBER .. EXPIRATION DATE 

PRESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT MANAGER WANE 

pu'Retv 
VENDOR WHOLESALER PHARMACY 

POM NOTIFICATION DATE LICENSENIJMBER Z/32r 
VENDOR LICENSE NUMBER 

/ j 
. 

REGISTERED 

iWtushe 
LICENSE NUMBER - g 

a 

SATISFACTORY 
- 
NA 

— 
YES 

— 
NO 

1. Rx department hours open 5 days for 40 hours per week. (64816-28.1081. F.A.C.J 7; '.' 
2. Pharmacy technicians properly identified and supervised, approval dale. 84616-27.410. F.A.CJ r— 
3. PharmacIst on duty when Rx department open. 84316-28.109, F.A.C.] 
4. Proporslgns dIsplayed. 465.025(7), F.Sj (64616-28.109(1). F.A.C.J 64815-23.1081, SF.A.cj 

64816-27.400(6), 5 
5. Written and verbal offer to counsel patients. 164B16-27.820(1), FAG.] 
6, PresCription department has Convenient sink/running water. 64016-28.102(1), F.A.C.] 
7. PrescriptIon department clean and safe. 64818-26.102(4), F.A.CJ 
8. Proper equIpment and references as required. T64816-28.102, F.A.C.J 

9. Medication properly labeled, 465.0255, F.S.1 64616.28.108, FAG.] .1c 
10. l Policy and Procedures and quarterly meetings. (64316-27,300. FAG. 766.101, F.S4 
11. PresCriptions have the date dispensed and dispensing pharmacIsts. 893.04(1) (c) 8, F.S.J 64816-28.140(3) (b), F.A.C.J 
12. Pharmacy maintains patient profile records. 64B16.27.800, F.&C.] 7 
13. Contmfled substance records readily retrIevable. (893.07 (4)(8), F.S.] 
14. All controlled substance prescriptions contain information requIred. 893.04(1) (c), F.S.] 

— 
15. PrescrIptions may not be filled in excess of one year or six months for controls from the date written. 

893.04(1) (g), F.S.] 64B16-28.114, F.A.Cj 
16. Controlled substance Inventory taken on a biennial basis and available for inspection. (693.07(1) (a), F.Sj 

- 

17. DEA 222 drder forms propeily completed. 893.07(2), ;.7 
18. Controlled substance Rx information In coniputersystem is retrievable. (2ICFR 893.07, F.S] 64916-28.140, F.A.C.]* r. 
19. Controlled substance records maintained Ior2 years. 2ICFR 2ICFR 1306.22J 893.07(4)(b), F.SJ 

V 20. Certified daily Log OR printout maintained as required by section. 2ICFR 1306.22(b)(3)] (64816.28.140(3)(b), F.A.CJ 
21. Registered pharmaCist properly prescribing. (64616-27.210, E.A.CJ * 

22. Compounding records properly maintained. 84916-27.700, F.AC.J 64B16-28.140(4), F.A.C.] 
23. Unit dose records properly maintained. (465.016(1) (I), 64916.28.11B, F.A.CJ 

, 

* Quest Ions with C) maybe answered s (not applicable) 
. 

* Note: If establish nient is engaged in parenteral/onteral compounding, a separate inspection form should be compteted. 

Remarks: J'JeiQ 

)it 
.W 

opeA)IM 1 UG fiSEOØWTC i , OM, Dwc'eAy *i 
A/a b tc ?rouiA R3! 

the laws and r ulatlbns concerned explained, and the Informat I have read an had t this Inspiction report end to the bestof niy . 
Puint Maths 
WN 359 Revised 06/09 7; 3/06. Replaces 12/02, 12/OD 

Number Slgnatife of WJ 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforth. 

Surgeon General & Sec 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naben 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
PETITIONER, 

VS. CASE NO. 201019143 

JAMES M. MAISTER, 
RESPONDENT. 

NOTICE 

TO: JAMES M. MAISTER 
4810 DIAMONDS PALM LOOP 
WESLEY CHAPEL, FL 33543 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a disciplinary hearing will be heard before the BOARD OF PHARMACY 
on Wednesday, February 12, 2014, commencing at 9 a.m. Although the Respondent is not required 
to be present, it is in their best interest to attend. This hearing will be held at The Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809. 

The purpose of the hearing is to consider a motion for: Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 

Note: Cases shown on the agenda as "timed" items may be heard in a different order or may be heard 
earlier if all parties are present. Cases are scheduled beginning at 9 a.m.; therefore, it is imperative 
that you arrive promptly at 9 a.m. and be prepared to be at the meeting for several hours until your 
case is heard. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Notice of Hearing has 
been sent by U.S. Mail to the above address(es) this 14th day of January, 2014. 

/7 
Executive Dire or 

7/BOARD OF PHARMACY 
'-" Florida Department of Health 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 - 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance T\NITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin ClO Tallahassee, FL 32399-3260 lth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4444 • FAX: (850) 245-4791 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

MEMORANDUM 
Tammy Collins, Acting Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy 
Casey Cowan, Assistant General Counsel 
Hearing - No Disputed Material Facts 
DOH v. James M. Maister, R.PH. 

DOH Case Number: 2010-19143 

December 19, 2013 

Enclosed you will find materials in the above-referenced case to be placed on the agenda for 
final agency action for the February 12, 2014 meeting of the board. The following 
information is provided in this regard. 
Subject: James M. Maister, R.PH. 
Subject's Address of 4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Record: Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 
Enforcement Address: 4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 

Subject's License No: 34202 

Licensure File No: 
Initial Licensure Date: 
Board Certification: No 

Required to Appear: No 

Current IPNJPRN Contract: No 

Allegation(s): Violated Section 465.016(1 )(e), Florida Statutes 
(2010) by violation of 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida Statutes 
(2009) 

Prior Discipline: 
Probable Cause Panel: 

Subject's Attorney: Pro Se 

Complainant/Address: Department Of Health 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel • Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express malt address: 2585 Merchants Row - 105 

PHONE: FAX 850/245-4683 

HEALTH 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State In the Nation 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General & Secretary 

TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 
SUB)ECT: 

DATE: 

(ILC 

23211 

7/19/1999 

Rank: PS 

4000, DOI-f-02-1355-FOI; 5020, DOH-02-1354-FOJ 

Meshad & Weizer 

March 28, 2013 

ldasHealth.com lthyFLA 
YOUTIJBE: fldoh 



Materials Submitted: 

CLC/bhh 

Memorandum to the Board 
Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of 
Material Fact for Final Order 

Administrative Complaint 
Motion to Assess Costs 

Exhibit A-Affidavit of Fees and Cost 
Exhibit 1-Complaint Cost Summary 
Exhibit 2-Itemized Cost by Complaint 

Board Notification Letter 
Election of Rights 
Supplemental Investigative Report dated 4/18/2013 
PCP Memo 
PRN Letter 
456 Materials 
456 Request 
Letters/Response 
Confidentia lity Agreement (signed) 

Final Investigative Report 
Exhibits 1-17 

Disciplinary Guidelines: Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2010)- $1,500 
fine and one (1) year probation up to $5,000 fine and one (1) year suspension, 

PREUMINARY CASE REMARKS: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

One count AC alleging a violation of Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2010), by a 
violation of 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida Statutes (2009), by attempting to obtain a controlled 
substance by fraud, a third degree felony. 

On or about August 17, August 29, and September 8, 2010, Respondent filled a fraudulent 
prescription for hydrocodone/APAP, at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located in Wesley Chapel, 
Florida. On or about September 30, 2010, the Pasco County Sheriff's Office arrested 
Respondent and charged him with three (3) counts of attempting to obtain a controlled 
substance by fraud, a third degree felony in violation of Section 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida 
Statutes. 

Florida Department of Health 
Office of the Genera! CounselS Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 8ald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 

Express mail address: Row - Suite 105 

PHONE: 8501245-4444• FAX 8501245-4883 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
!TTER*lealthyFLA 

FACEBOOKFWepartrnentofHeafth 

fldoh 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

v. CASE NO. 2010-19143 

JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PHE, 

Respondent 

_____________________________________________________________I 

MOTION FOR FINAL ORDER AFTER A HEARING NOT INVOLVING 
DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS 

PETITIONER, the Florida Department of Health, by and through the 

undersigned counsel, hereby moves the Board of Pharmacy for entry of a 

Final Order in the above-styled cause on a date and time that has been 

determined and noticed by the Board. As grounds therefore Petitioner 

states: 

1. Petitioner previously filed an Administrative Complaint against 

Respondent alleging that Respondent had violated the provisions of Florida 

Statutes, as set forth therein. Petitioner, by filing the Administrative 

Complaint, is seeking to discipline Respondent's license to practice 

Pharmacy, thereby affecting Respondent's substantial interests. 



2. On or about April 2, 2013, Petitioner served Respondent with 

the Administrative Complaint via Certified Mail at 4810 Diamonds Palm 

Loop, Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543. Petitioner, by serving Respondent 

with the Comp'aint, provided Respondent written notice of 

its decision to seek discipline of the Respondent's license to practice 

pharmacy. 

3. Respondent has filed an Election of Rights Form or other 

responsive pleading evincing, or has otherwise indicated, that Respondent 

does not dispute the material facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

4. There are no disputed issues of material fad to be resolved by 

the Board. 

5. Respondent has been advised by way of this Motion, that a 

copy of the investigative file in this case will be furnished to the Board, 

establishing a prima facie case regarding the violations as set forth in the 

Complaint. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy, after allowing Respondent the opportunity to present oral 

and/or written evidence in mitigation of the Administrative Complaint, enter 



a Final Order imposing whatever discipline upon Respondent's license that 

the Board deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Heath 

IIL. COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 
Fla. Bar No. 0035536 
Florida Department of Health 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 
Email: casey_cowan@doh.state.fi.us 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing has been provided by U.S. mail this day of 

2013, to: JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PII., at 

4810 DIAMONDS PALM LOOP, WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33543. 

CASEYJ... COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

ERq 
v. CASE NO. 2010-19143 

]AMES . MAISTER, RPH, 

RESPONDENT. I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner Department of Heath, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Cornplatnt before the Board of Pharmacy 

against Respondent, James M. R.!h., and in support thereof 

alleges: 

Petilioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed pharmacist within the state of Florida, havingbeen issued license 

number PS 34202. 



3. Respondent's address of record is 4810 Diamonds Palm Loop, 

Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543. 

On or about St 17, 2010, Respondent filled a fraudulent 

prescription for hydmcodone/APAP, at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located 

Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

• S. Hydrocodone/APAP contains hydrocodone and ace.tamtnophen, 

or Tylenol and is prescribed to treat pain. According to Section 893.03(3), 

Florida Statutes, hydrocodone, in the dosages found in hydrocodone/APAP 

is a Schedule III controlled substance that has a potential for abuse less 

than the substances in Schedules I and II and has a currently accepted 

medical use in treatment in the United States, and abuse of the substance 

• niay lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high psychological 

dependence. 

6. On or about August 29, 2010, Respondent filled a fraudulent 

prescription fOr at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located In 

Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

7. On or about September 8, 2010, Respondent fflled a fraudulent 

prescription for hydrocodone/APAP, at a Target Pharmacy #1382, located In 

Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

Depazttitnt of Healthy. s 14. Malst&, RPH 2 

Case Numbs 2010-19143 



8. On or about September 30, 2010, the Pasco County Sheriff's 

Office arrested Respondent and charged. him with three (3) counts of 

attempting to obtain a controlled substance by fraud, a third degree felony 

in vidlation of Section 893.13(7)(a)9,, Florida Statutes, 

Section 465.016(1)(e), Florida Statutes (2010), provides that a 

pharmacist can be disciplined, Including suspension, for violating a 

provision of Chapter Florida 

10, SectIon Florida Statutes (2010), provides that It 

is unlawful for any person to acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or 

obtain, possession of a iled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, 

forgery, deception, or subterfuge. 

ii. As set forth above, on or about September 30, 2010, the Pasco 

County Sheriff's Office arrested Respondent and charged him with three 

(3) counts of attempting to obtain a controlled substance by fraud, a third 

degree felony In violation of Section 893.13(7)(a)9, Florida Statutes. 

12. Based on the foregoing, Respondent vIolated Section 

465.016(t)(e), Florida Statutes (2010), by a violation of 893.13(7)(a)9, 

Florida Statutes (2009), by attempting to obtain a contmlled substance by 

fraud, a third degree felony. 

of Healthy. James II. iMer, RP*4 3 

Case Nunter 10-19143 



WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondents license, resfriction of 

practice, of an administraUve fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

billed or cnliected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 
1 

SIGNED this day of . 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

ILED 
DEPAnMEM. OF HEALTh DEptJn ic CLERK Angel Sandes 

Cey LO - 
istant General Counsel 
Ha. Bar No. 0035536 
Florida Department of Health• 
Office of the General Counsel 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 
Tallahassee, Morida 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 

(850) 245-4683 
Email: 

PCP: 
PCP Members: Wetw k ?sko4 

DepeIvnen o( health V. James P4. RPtI 

Case 201019143 
4 



NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120369 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and to call and 
cross-examine withesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on hisor her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to . investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may: indude attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other disciplineimposed, 

Department of Health v. J&ncs M. MaIStht, RPt( 
5 

Case Numbef 2010-19143 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

0 CASF 0 
JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH., 

Respondent 

___________________________________I 

MOTION TO ASSESS COSTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SECTION ) 

COMES NOW the Department of Health, by and through 

undersigned counsel, and moves the Board of Pharmacy for the entry of 

a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent for the 

investigation and prosecution of this case in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. As grounds therefore, the Petitioner states 

the following: 

1. At its next regularly scheduled meeting, the Board of 

Pharmacy will take up for consideration the above-styled disciplinary 

action and will enter a Final Order therein. 

2. Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In addition to any other discipline imposed 
through final order, or citation, entered on or 



after July 1, 2001, pursuant to this section or 
discipline imposed through final order, or 
citation, entered on or after July 1, 2001, for a 

violation of any practice act, the board, or the 
department when there is not board, shall assess 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution 
of the case. Such costs related to the 
investigation and prosecution include, but are 
not limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, 
costs related to the time spent by the attorney 
and other personnel working on the case, and 
any other expenses incurred by the department 
for the case. The board, or the department 
when there is no board. shall determine the 
amount of costs to be assessed after its 
consideration of an affidavit of itemized costs 
and any written objections . . 

3. The investigation and prosecution of this case has resulted 

in costs in the total amount of $4, 393.92, based on the following 

itemized statement of costs 

Cost to Date ***** 

Hours Costs 
Complaint: 1.60] $92. 1 
Legal: 

Compliance: 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total: 
J 

1 
Expenses to Date: J___________ l 
Prior Amount: 

1 

Total Costs to Date: 
I 

$4, 

2 



Therefore, the Petitioner seeks an assessment of costs against the 

Respondent in the amount of $2,165.07 as evidenced in the attached 

affidavit. (Exhibit A). 

4. the Respondent file wrftten objections to the 

assessment of costs, within ten (10) days of the date of this motion, 

specifying the grounds for the objections and the specific elements of 

the costs to which the objections are made, the Petitioner requests that 

the Board determine the amount of costs to be assessed based upon its 

consideration of the affidavit attached as Exhibit A and any timely-filed 

written objections. 

5. Petitioner requests that the Board grant this motion and 

assess costs in the amount of $2,165.07 as supported by competent, 

substantial evidence. This assessment of costs is in addition to any other 

discipline imposed by the Board and is in accordance with Section 

456.072(4), Florida Statutes. 

WHEREFORE, the Department of Health requests that the Board 

of Pharmacy enter a Final Order assessing costs against the Respondent 

in the amount of $2,165.07. 

3 



DATED this 3 day of , 2013. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon l and Secretary of Health 

CASEY . COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 
Florida Bar No.: 0035536 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4683 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion to Assess Costs has been provided by U.S. Mail this 

day of 

________________, 

2013, to: JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH., 

4810 DIAMOND PALM LOOP, WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33543. 

CASEY L. 
Assistant General Counsel 

4 



AFFIDAVIT OF FEES AND COSTS EXPENDED 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF LEON: 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared SHANE 
WALTERS who was sworn and states as follows: 

1) My name is Shane Walters. 

2) I am over the age of 18, competent to testify, and make this affidavit 
upon my own personal knowledge and after review of the records at 
the Florida Department of Health (DOH). 

3) I am the Operations and Management Consultant Manager (OMCM) 
for the Consumer Services and Compliance Management Unit for 
00K. The Consumer Services Unit is where all complaints against 
Florida health care licensees (e.g., medical doctors, dentists, nurses, 
respiratory therapists) are officially filed. I have been in my current job 
position for more than one year. My business address is 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin C-75 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3275. 

4) As OMCM of the Consumer Services and Compliance Management 
Unit, my job duties include reviewing data in the Time Tracking System 
and verifying that the amounts correspond. The Time Tracking System 
is a computer program which records and tracks DOH's costs 
regarding the investigation and prosecution of cases against Florida 
health care licensees. 

5) As of today, DOH's total costs for investigating and prosecuting DOH 
case number(s) 2010-19143 (Department of Health v. JAMES M. 

MAISTER, R.PH.) are FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED 
NINETY-THREE DOLLARS AND NINETY-TWO CENTS ($4, 393.92). 

6) The costs for DOH case numbers 2010-19143 (Department of Health 
v. JAMES NI. MAISTER, R.PH.) are summarized in Exhibit 1 (Cost 
Summary Report), which is attached to this document. 

7) The itemized costs and expenses for DOH case numbers 2010-19143 
(Department of Health v. JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH.) are detailed in 

Exhibit 2 (Itemized Cost Report and Itemized Expense Report and 
receipts), which is attached to this document. 

8) The itemized costs as reflected in Exhibit 2 are determined by the 
following method: DOH employees who work on cases daily are to 

I of2 



keep track of their time in six-minute increments. (e.g., investigators 
and lawyers). A designated DOH employee in the Consumer Services 
Unit, Legal Department, and in each area office, inputs the time 
worked and expenses spent into the Time Tracking System. Time and 
expenses are charged against a state health care Board (e.g., Florida 
Board of Medicine, Florida Board of Dentistry, Florida Board of 
Osteopathic Medicine), and/or a case. If no Board or case can be 
charged, then the time and expenses are charged as administrative 
time. The hourly rate of each employee is calculated by formulas 
established by the Department. (See the Itemized Cost Report) 

9) Shane Walters, first being duly sworn, states that she has read the 
foregoing Affidavit and its attachments and the statements contained 
therein are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and belief. 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT. 

A JJ 
Shane Walters, Affiant 

State of Florida 
County of Leon 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this______ day of 2013, 
by Shane Walters, who is pers nally known to me. 

Notary Signature 

Name Printed 

Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public: 

2 of 2 



Cost Sumntary 
Complaint Number: 201019143 

Page 1 of 1 

Subject's Name: MAISTER. JAMES M 

http://mqaapps.doh.state.ftus/IRMOOTIMETRAKJCSDETL.ASP 

[ 
Cost to Date 

Hours Costs 

1.60 ¶92.191 

Thveshgation: 
] 

Legal: 20.6011 1 
Compliance: ir 011 so.ool 

********** **********l 
Sub Total: 53.10 

[ 
¶4,393.921 

Expenses to Date: 
[ 
l 

Prflor Amount: _____________ ¶0.00 

ITotat Costs to Date: 
1 

¶4,393.92 



Q
iv

hi
on

 i 
x 

C
 O

N
E

 I
D

 E
N

T
 L

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
M

se
la

nc
e 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

N
4 
\ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
on

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
10

19
14

3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
6/

20
 1

3 
P

ag
e 

I 
of

4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 U

N
IT

 

H
A

I7
 

0.
10

 
$5

7.
62

 

H
A

I7
 

0.
10

 
$5

7.
62

 

$5
.7

6 
$5

.7
6 

11
/2

4/
20

10
 

11
/2

9/
20

10
 

I I 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 D

U
T

IE
S

 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 D
U

T
IE

S
 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

0.
20

 
$1

1.
52

 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

H
A

 1
07

 
0.

80
 

$5
7.

62
 

$4
6.

10
 

10
/0

51
20

10
 

78
 

IN
IT

IA
L 

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

 O
F

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
A

IO
7 

0.
60

 
$5

7.
62

 
$3

4.
57

 
02

/2
2/

20
12

 
64

 
LE

G
A

LA
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
S

S
IO

N
- 

B
O

A
R

D
O

F
F

LC
E

,D
E

P
T

S
T

A
F

F
O

R
A

T
T

Y
G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

1.
40

 
$8

0.
67

 

IIN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 
I 

12
3 

1.
10

 
$6

5.
23

 
$7

1.
75

 
10

/0
8/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

T
ll2

3 
1.

80
 

86
5.

23
 

$1
17

.4
1 

10
/1

2/
20

10
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

1l
23

 
1.

30
 

86
5.

23
 

$8
4.

80
 

10
/1

3/
20

 1
0 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

T
I 

12
3 

0.
20

 
$6

5.
23

 
$1

3.
05

 
10

/1
3/

20
10

 
tO

O
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 O
F 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

S
, 

S
U

B
P

O
E

N
A

S
, 

N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 C

E
A

S
E

 

12
3 

2.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

35
.6

2 
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

L 
T

IM
E

 

12
3 

7.
50

 
$6

7.
81

 
$5

08
.5

8 
10

/1
5/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$6

7.
81

 
10

/1
9/

20
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$6

7.
81

 
10

/1
9/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

2.
10

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

42
.4

0 
10

/2
6/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

12
3 

2.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

35
.6

2 
10

/2
6/

20
10

 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

T
I 

12
3 

3.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$2

03
.4

3 
10

/2
7/

20
10

 
4 

R
O

U
T

IN
E

 I
N

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IV

E
 W

O
R

K
 

l2
3 

1.
50

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

01
.7

2 
10

/2
7/

20
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

11
23

 
1.

00
 

$6
7.

81
 

$6
7.

81
 

10
/2

8/
20

10
 

4 
R

O
U

T
IN

E
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IV
E

 W
O

R
K

 

12
3 

1.
50

 
$6

7.
81

 
$1

01
.7

2 
10

/2
8/

20
10

 
58

 
T

R
A

V
E

LT
IM

E
 

12
3 

1.
00

 
$6

7.
81

 
$6

7.
81

 
10

/2
8/

20
 1

0 
76

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 

12
3 

0.
30

 
$6

3.
98

 
$1

9.
19

 
04

/I6
/2

01
3 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

w
 

Fl
or

id
a 

O
ep

ar
tn

ie
nt

 o
f 

H
ea

lth
 

--
 F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



at
 

x*
*C

O
N

F
1D

E
N

T
E

A
L*

**
 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
ua

lil
y 

A
ss

ut
an

ce
 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 C
os

t 
by

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

20
10

19
14

3 

R
ep

or
tD

at
e 

08
/1

6/
20

13
 

P
ag

e2
of

4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

1 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

04
/I7

/2
01

3 
10

0 
N

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

S
, S

U
B

P
O

E
N

A
S

,N
O

T
IC

E
T

O
C

E
A

S
E

 
1 

0.
60

 
$6

3.
98

 
$3

8.
39

 
04

/1
8/

20
13

 
10

0 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 O

F 
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
PL

A
IN

T
S,

 S
U

B
PO

E
N

A
S,

 N
O

T
IC

E
 T

O
 C

E
A

SE
 

11
23

 
1.

00
 

$6
3.

98
 

$6
3.

98
 

04
/I 

8/
20

13
 

6 
S

U
P

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
L 

IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 

S
ub

 T
ot

al
 

30
.9

0 
$2

,0
72

.8
8 

IP
R

O
S

E
C

U
T

IO
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 U

N
IT

 

H
L

L
8I

B
 

2.
60

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

90
.0

6 
11

/1
2/

20
10

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
H

L
L

8I
I3

 
0.

10
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$1
1.

16
 

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
C

A
SE

FI
L

E
 

H
L

L
8I

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$4

4.
62

 
11

/1
5/

20
10

 
35

 
T

E
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 C

A
LL

S
 

H
LL

8I
 B

 
0.

80
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$8
9.

25
 

11
/1

8/
20

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
IB

 
0.

50
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$5
5.

78
 

11
/1

8/
20

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
8I

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$4

4.
62

 
11

/1
8/

20
10

 
26

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 M

E
M

O
R

A
N

D
U

M
 

R
IB

 
0.

50
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$5
5.

78
 

11
/2

2/
20

10
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
S

E
 F

IL
E

 
H

LL
8 

I 
B

 
0.

60
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$6
6.

94
 

11
/2

2/
20

10
 

26
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

2.
31

 
09

/0
9/

20
11

 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L 
R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

2.
31

 
09

/0
9/

20
11

 
78

 
IN

IT
IA

L 
R

E
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 A

N
A

LY
S

IS
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
LA

IN
T

 
E

IL
L6

7B
 

1.
30

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$1

45
.0

3 
10

/0
3/

20
11

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

S
E

 F
IL

E
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$ 
I 

I 
I 

.5
6 

$3
3.

47
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

64
 

LE
G

A
L 

A
D

V
IC

E
/D

IS
C

U
S

S
IO

N
 - 

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
F

IC
E

,D
E

P
T

 S
T

A
F

F
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$3
3.

47
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

36
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

O
R

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

O
F

LE
T

T
E

R
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$2
2.

31
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

46
 

LE
G

A
L 

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$4

4.
62

 
10

/0
3/

20
11

 
81

 
E

S
O

/E
R

O
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

40
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$4
4.

62
 

10
/0

3/
20

11
 

46
 

LE
G

A
L 

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 
H

LL
67

A
 

0.
30

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$3

3.
47

 
10

/0
3/

20
11

 
64

 
LE

G
A

L 
A

D
V

IC
E

/D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 - 
B

O
A

R
D

 IC
E

,D
E

P
T

 S
T

A
F

F
 O

R
 A

T
T

Y
 G

E
N

 O
F

F
: 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$2
2.

31
 

10
/0

5/
20

 I 
I 

26
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
E

 M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 
IL

L6
7B

 
0.

20
 

$1
11

.5
6 

$2
2.

31
 

10
/0

5/
20

11
 

81
 

/E
R

O
 

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

11
.5

6 
$2

2.
31

 
10

/0
5/

20
11

 
28

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IV
E

 C
O

M
P

LA
IN

T
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$2
0.

48
 

02
/0

5/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$3
0.

72
 

02
/0

5/
20

12
 

46
 

LE
G

A
L 

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

 
H

LL
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
02

/2
2/

20
12

 
64

 
LE

G
A

L 
A

D
V

IC
E

/D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 - 
H

O
A

R
D

 O
F

F
IC

E
,D

E
P

T
 S

T
A

F
F

 O
R

 A
T

T
Y

 G
E

N
 O

F
F

 
H

LL
67

B
 

1.
30

 
$1

02
.4

 I 
$1

33
.1

3 
02

/2
2/

20
12

 
36

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
A

T
IO

N
 O

R
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

H
LL

67
B

 
0.

30
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$3
0.

72
 

07
/0

6/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
--

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
--

 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



D
iQ

hi
on

 1
 

w
 x

 
M

ed
ic

ol
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

 0
 N

 F
 I

 D
 E

 N
 T

 I
 A

 L
 * 

* 
* 

1 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t b

y 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

10
19

14
3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
6/

20
13

 
P

ag
e3

of
4 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

13
 

.0
.2

0 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
09

/1
1/

20
12

 
46

 
L

E
G

A
L

 R
E

SE
A

R
C

H
 

H
L

L
67

B
 

10
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$1
0.

24
 

09
/1

8/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

-I
L

L
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
09

/1
8/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
13

 
0.

30
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$3
0.

72
 

09
/1

8/
20

12
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 
H

L
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$2
0.

48
 

09
/1

8/
20

12
 

36
 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

IO
N

 O
F 

L
E

T
T

E
R

 
1-

IL
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
02

.4
1 

$2
0.

48
 

09
/2

1/
20

12
 

37
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 

H
L

L
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

02
.4

1 
$2

0.
48

 
09

/2
1/

20
 1

2 
46

 
L

E
G

A
L

 R
E

SE
A

R
C

H
 

FI
L

L
67

B
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
12

/1
0/

20
12

 
37

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 L
E

T
T

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
B

 
,2

0 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
12

/1
0/

20
12

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 
-I

L
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

12
/1

0/
20

12
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 
I-

IL
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/0

2/
20

13
 

46
 

L
E

G
A

L
 R

E
SE

A
R

C
H

 
13

 
0.

60
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$6
3.

81
 

01
/0

2/
20

13
 

25
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

A
SE

 F
IL

E
 

H
L

L
67

B
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
01

/0
2/

20
13

 
31

 
PR

E
PA

R
E

 O
R

 R
E

V
IS

E
 C

L
O

SI
N

G
 O

R
D

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
B

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/0

2/
20

 1
3 

32
 

R
E

V
IE

W
 C

L
O

SI
N

G
 O

R
D

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/1

4/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

20
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$2
1.

27
 

01
/1

5/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
IL

L
67

A
 

0.
40

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$4

2.
54

 
01

/1
5/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
L

E
PH

O
N

E
 C

A
L

L
S 

H
L

L
67

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
02

/2
0/

20
13

 
35

 
T

E
L

E
PH

O
N

E
 C

A
L

L
S 

-I
L

L
67

A
 

0.
80

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$8

5.
08

 
02

/2
0/

20
13

 
25

 
R

E
V

IE
W

 C
A

SE
 F

IL
E

 

H
L

L
67

A
 

0.
50

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$5

3.
18

 
02

/2
0/

20
13

 
31

 
IS

E
C

L
O

SI
N

G
O

R
D

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

02
/2

1/
20

13
 

28
 

PR
E

PA
R

E
O

R
R

E
V

IS
E

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
C

O
M

PL
A

IN
T

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

04
/0

2/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

9!
 

04
/1

5/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

 C
A

L
L

S 
L

IL
L

67
A

 
0.

30
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$3
1.

91
 

04
/1

9/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

50
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$5
3.

18
 

04
/1

9/
20

13
 

40
 

PR
E

PA
R

A
T

IO
N

O
FO

R
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
O

FA
PL

E
A

D
IN

G
 

H
L

L
67

A
 

0.
20

 
$1

06
.3

5 
$2

1.
27

 
04

/1
9/

20
13

 
36

 
PR

E
PA

R
A

T
IO

N
O

R
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
O

FL
E

T
T

E
R

 
H

L
L

67
A

 
0.

40
 

$1
06

.3
5 

$4
2.

54
 

05
/0

1/
20

13
 

35
 

T
E

L
E

PH
O

N
E

C
A

L
L

S 

Su
b 

T
ot

al
 

20
.6

0 
$2

,2
28

.8
5 

I 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
- 

F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 -

- 
ite

m
iz

ed
co

st
 



D
M

si
c,

n 
ol

 
M

ed
ic

al
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

M
 Q

A
 

**
*C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

fl
A

L
**

* 
T

im
e 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 
It

em
iz

ed
 C

os
t 

by
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

 
20

10
19

14
3 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e 
08

/1
6/

20
13

 
P
a
g
e
 
4
 o
f
4
 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 H
ou

rs
 

S
ta

ff 
R

at
e 

C
os

t 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

at
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 C
od

e 
A

ct
iv

ity
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

T
ot

al
 C

os
t 

$4
,3

93
.9

2 

F
lo

rE
da

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 H

ea
lth

 
-.

 F
O

R
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L 
U

S
E

 O
N

LY
 - 

ite
m

iz
ed

co
st

 



C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

**
* 

M
ed

ic
al

 Q
uo

lil
y 

t.s
su

ra
nc

e 

T
im

e 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 

Ite
m

iz
ed

 E
xp

en
se

 b
y 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
 

R
ep

or
t 

D
at

e:
 

08
/1

6/
20

1 
3 

P
ag

e 
1 
of

 I 

E
xp

en
se

 
E

xp
en

se
 

E
xp

en
se

 

S
ta

ff 
C

od
e 

D
at

e 
A

m
ou

nt
 

C
od

e 
E

xp
en

se
 C

od
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

S
ub

T
ot

al
 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s 

F
lo

rid
a 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 

- 
F

O
R

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L 

U
S

E
 O

N
LY

 -
- 

ite
m

iz
ed

ex
pe

ns
e 



Rick Scott Mission: I 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health I 

__________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state,county&communityefforls. 

John H. Annstrong, MD, FAGS 

H State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

August 20, 2013 

VIA U. S. MAIL 

JAMES M. MAISTER 
4810 DIAMOND PALM LOOP 
WESLEY CHAPEL, FLORIDA 33543 

Re: DON vs. JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH. 
DON Case Number: 2010-19143 

Dear Mr. MAISTER: 

I am in receipt of your election of rights requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material 
fact executed by you on May 3, 2013, concerning the above referenced case. This means that the 
facts alleged in the Administrative Complaint are uncontested. This is an important distinction because, 
by law, the Board cannot resolve disputes of material fact in this case or any disciplinary case. Since you 
are requesting a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact, you are not admitting the facts 
alleged in the Administrative Complaint, however, you are agreeing not to contest these facts and to limit 
presentation to legal argument, if any, and to matters in mitigation or extenuation. 

Our office is now preparing this case to be presented at the next meeting of the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy, scheduled for October 9, 2013, at the Wyndham bay Point Resort, 4114 Jan Cooley 
Drive, Panama City Beach, Florida 32408. Please be advised your case will be set at the 
convenience of the Department and/or the Florida Board of Pharmacy and you will be notified of the 
date and time approximately two weeks prior to the meeting. 

Thank for your attention and cooperation in this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel 
free to contact this office. 

Sincerely, 

CASEYUL. COWAN 
Assistant General Counsel 

CLC/bhh 

Florida Department of Health nlth.com 
Office of the General Counsel • Services Unit 

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C.65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

YGUTUBE: tldoh 
PHONE: 8501245-4444 ' FAX 8501245.4683 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Cowan, Casey 

From: Cowan, Casey 
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2013 4:02 PM 

To: 
Subject: Proposed settlement agreement/confidentiality agreement 

Attachments: Maister, James (2010-19143).pdf 

Mr. Maister, 

Per our conversation this afternoon please find the proposed settlement offer and confidentiality agreement attached to 

this email. Please confirm that you received this email. If you had any trouble opening the attachments please contact my 

office and we will mail you a paper copy. Upon receipt of the signed confidentiality agreement we will provide you with a 

copy of the complété investigative file. If you have any further questions or concerns please contact me at the number 
listed below. 

Maister, James 
(2O10-19143).pd... 

Thank you, 

Casey L. Cowan, Assistant General Counsel 
Office of the General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4444 ext. 8103 

Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from state officials regarding 
state business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your e-mail communications may 
therefore be subject to public disclosure. However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or adversarial 
administrative proceeding to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this email is an attorney-client 
communication, and is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes. See Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statutes (2010). 

DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in Florida through Integrated 1 county, & 
community efforts. 

Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 

Values: (ICARE) 
I nnovatiort: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely. 
C oltaboratlon: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems. 
A ccountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
R esponsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & engaging our partners. 

E xcellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous performance improvement. 

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. Go Green! 

1. 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONERS 

v. CASE NO. -19143 

JAMESM. MAISTER, RPH, 

RESPONDENT. 

St i i LEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as disposition of 

the Administrative Complaint, attached as Exhibit A, in lieu of further 

administrative proceedings. 

STIPULATED FACTS 

/ 

1. At all times material to this matter, James M. Maister, RPI-I, was 

a licensed pharmacist in the state of Ftorida, having been issued license 

number PS 34202. Respondent's mailing address of record is 4810 

Diamonds Palm Loop, Wesley Chapel, Florida 35543. 

. 



2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint, filed 

by the Department of Health (Department) and properly served upon 

Respondent, with violations of Chapters 456 and 465, Florida 

STIPULATED LAW 

•j Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department 

2. Respondent admits that the allegations in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to discipline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DIsposmow 

1. - Respondent shall be present when this 

Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board and under oath shall 

answer all questions asked by the Board concerning this case and its 

disposition. 

2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter in an amount not to exceed two thousand seventeen 

dollars and ninety-two cents ($2,017.92). Total costs shall beassessed 

2 





5. - Respondent shall be placed on probation for five (5) 

years. During the period of probation, Respondent shall be subject to the 

following terms and 

a. Respondent shah not function as a prescription 

department manager in any Florida permitted pharmacy during 

the probation; 

b. Respondent shaH not work at or for more than 2 

pharmacies during each quarter of the probationary period, 

unless Respondent obtains prior written approval from the 

Board; 

c. During the first year of Respondent's probation, the 

Department shall conduct semi-annual audits of 5 randomly 

selected controlled substances at the Respondent's place of 

employment at Respondent's cost; 

d. R.espodent shall submit written reports to the Compliance 

Officer for the Medical Quality Assurance/Compliance 

Management Unit, Compliance Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 

Bin C-al, 32399-3251. These reports shall include 

Respondent's license number, current address, and phone 

4 



number; current name, address, and phone number of each 

pharmacy in which Respondent is engaged in the practice of 

pharmacy; the names of all pharmacists, pharmacy interns, 

pharmacy technicians, relief pharmacists, and prescription 

department managers working with Respondent. These reports 

shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

e. Respondent shall ensure that his employer submits 

written reports to the Compliance Officer for the Medical 

Quality Assurance/Compliance Management Unit, Compliance 

Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin i, 32399-3251. These 

reports shall contain the name, address, license number, and 

phone number of each pharmacy intern, pharmacy technician, 

relief pharmacist, and prescription department manager 

working in the prescription department where Respondent 

practices, and provide a brief description of Respondent's 

duties, responsibilities, and working schedule. These reports 

shalt be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

S 



f. Respondent shall comply with any and all 

recommendations from PRN; and 

g. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before the 

Board of Pharmacy during his last three (3) months of probation. The 

Board retains the right to extend Respondent's term of probation or to 

impose additional restrictions, conditions or limitations on Respondent's 

license. 

6. Future - Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 

465, 499 or 893, Florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

7. Violation of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitute 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disdplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

B. No Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

6 



the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no evidence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. Furthermore, should 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further participation, consideration, 

or resolutionof these proceedings. 

10. Not Preclude Additional - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Settlement Agreement as approved 

and incorporated into the Final Order will not preclude additional 

- 7 

Board and has no force or effect until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into its Final Order. 

9. Puroose of Agreement This Settlement Agreement is 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to review and examine all investigative file materials 

concerning Respondent prbr to, or conjunction with, consideration of 



proceedings by the Board or Department against Respondent for acts or 

omissions not specifically set forth in the Administrative Complaint 

11. Waiver of Attorney's Fees and - Respondent waives 

the right to seek any attorney's fees and costs from the Department in 

connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

12. Waiver of Procedural - Respondent waives all rights 

to further administrative procedure and to and further of this 

Settlement Agreement and the Final Order. 

13. Current - Respondent shall keep current his 

mailing address and his practice address with the Board of Pharmacy and 

the Compliance Officer and shall notify the Board of Pharmacy and the 

Compliance Officer of any change of mailing address or practice address 

within 10 days of the change. 

WHEREFORE, the parties request that the Board enter a Final Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement in resolution of this 

matter. 

SIGNED this day of 2013 

James M. Maister, RN 
cASE NO. 2010-19143 

B 



STATE OF_______________ 

COUNTY OF 

Before me personally appeared RPH, whose identity 
known to me or by (type of 
identification), and who, under oath, acknowledges that her signature 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 2013. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

APPROVED this day of 

____________________, 

2013. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, FACS 

Surgeon General and Secretary of Health 

Casey L. Cowan 
Assistant General Counsel 

Counsel for Petitioner 
Casey L. Cowan 
Florida Bar No. 0035536 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Tel.: 850.245.4640 ext. 8103 
Fax: 850.245.4683 

9 



STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 10-05-10 Case Number 201019143 

Subject: JAMES NI. MAISTER, R.PH Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 
813-545-9446 (C) 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2201 34202 Pharmacist Pharmacy 04-18-13 

Period of Investigition: 04-17-13 through 04-18-13 Type of Report Supplemental -1 

Alleged Violation: 465.016(1)(d)2.34e)(i)(m)(r), F.S., s. 456.072(1)(a)(m)(z), F.S.: 2.The misuse or abuse of;any 
medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in chapter 893. 3. Any abnormal physical or mental condition which 
threatens the safety of persons to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs.. (e)Violaling chapter 499; 
21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act;... (i)Compounding, dispensing, or distributing 
a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy... 
(m)Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, 
chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition... (r)Violating any provision of this 
chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto... (a)Making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of the licensee's profession... (m)Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of a profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a 
profession... (z)Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, 
drugs, narcotics, chemicals... 

Synopsis: This supplemental investigation is predicated upon receipt of a PSU Request Form requesting for 
Service (Exhibit #S1-1) of Administrative Complaint and related papers from CASEY L. COWAN, Esq. 

On Wednesday, April 17, 2013 Investigator TERRENCE DAWKINS hand served Administrative Complaint 
and related papers to adult female who identified herself as the spouse of JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH 
4810 Diamonds Palm; Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543. 

-a O 1 
-D 

C I 
SI-I PSU Request Form, pp. 2-3 -2 Affidavit of Service, p.4 r 
Related Case(s): 2010-19119 

Investigator/Date: 04A8/1 34. 4 Approved By/Date: 4 — 2 — 

Victor R. Troupe \/ L.JJY1 f'y 3 Babette S. Agett, TI —115 
Medical Malpractice Investigation Supervisor 

Distribution: HQJISU Page 1 

'APR 1 9 20U 
Page 1 

o 



MlLsslon: 
To prutect promote & improve the health 
of all peop'e In Fkida through Integrated 

county & community elloils. 

: 
Iti 

HEALTh 

Rick Ucott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon GeneS & Secretary 

Florida Department of Health 
Petitioner 

Ion To be the Healthiest State hi the Nafion 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

vs 
JAMES M MAISTER. R.Ph. 

Case No. 

Respondent 

COMES NOW, the affiant, who first being duty sworn, deposes and states: 
1) Affiant is an lnvesti9ator/Inspector employed by the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, State of Florida. 

2) That on 04-17-13 , Affiant made a diligent effort to locate respondent & to serve 
an Administrative ComDlaEnt Packet 

3) Check applicable answer below: 

_______Affiant 

made personal service to MAISTER's Wife on behalf of JAMES MAISTER, R.Ph. at his residence of 
4810 Diamonds Palm, Wesley Chapel, FL 33543, on dateL. . 

_______Afflant 

was unable to make service after searching for Respondent at (a) all addresses for Respondent 
shown In the DOH investigation of the case; (b) all official addresses for Respondent shown in his licensing records 
on the computer terminal or Board office; (c) Local telephone company for the last area Respondent was known to 
frequent; i) Division of Drivers Licenses; and (e) Utilities (electric, cable, etc.); any others: 

Before me, personally appeared Terrence Dawkins whose identity is known to me by Dersonally 
(type of identification) and who, acknowledges that his/her signature appears above. 

y before me this 

Notdy Public-State of Florida 

18th 

_______day 

of April , . 
My Commission Expires 

Type or Print Name 

JXHIDIT# 

Florida Department of Health 
OMsionol Medkai Quality Assurance + Bureau 

6800 N. Dale Mabry Hwy Sb. 220 Tampa, FL 33614 
PHONE:813.871-7262 'FAX CELL 813-328-4301 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
ITTER:HeafthyflA lolHeaIth 

YOtITUBE: fldoh 

State Of 
County Of ugh 

a TROUPE 3 
September 3, 2013 

- .- 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: I ,: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health _ 

state, county & community efforts. j John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
of all people in Flodda through inte9rated flir'' 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

June 19, 2013 

James Maister 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 

Re: Complaint Name: James Maister, R.PH. 
Case Number: 2010-19143 

Dear Mr. Maister: 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, enclosed is a copy of the Department's 
complete investigative file in this matter. We are providing you with a copy of the 
investigative file for Case Number: 2010-19143, James Maister, R.PHS, pursuant to 
the rules of discovery. We are sure that you will respect the confidentiality of the patient 
records pursuant to Chapter 456, Florida Statutes. 

If you have any questions please give me a call at (850) 245-1111 ext. 8103. The CD is 
password protected, the password is 456. 

Respectfully, 

y L. Cowan 
Assistant General Counsel 

CLC/bhh 
Enclosures: Investigative File #: 2010-19143 

Invoice #: MQPR13-681 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Office of the General Counsel' Prosecution Services Unit lealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Am C-65 'Tallahassee, FL 32399-1701 lealth 
Express mail address: 2585 Merchants Row — Suite 105 

VOUTUBE: fldoh 
PHONE: 85012454444• FAX 8501245-4683 



Acknowledgement of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

the Subject of art investigation by the Department of Health. 

As the Subject of such an investigation I am entitled to Inspect or receive a copy of the investigative 

report or patient records connected with the Investigation pursuant 

to Section 456.073(10). Florida Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 

information received under this provision, until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain 

the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

1 understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want { ) do not want ) to 

receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained Within the. investigative file. 

SIGNED this day of 

___________________ 

2013. 

James M. Maister, R.Ph. 
2010-19143 



- 

Jam
es M

aister 
T

E
R

$ 

flda3?543 
aua 

S
 a. 

F
O

R
E

V
E

R
 

C
asey L C

ow
an, A

ssistant G
eneral C

ounsel 
t 

D
ept of H

ealth, P
rosecution S

ervices U
n1t 

4052 B
ald C

ypress W
ay, B

in C
-65 

T
allahassee, F

lorida 32399-3265 

- 
- 

i 



\ ' Rick Scott 
Mission Governor 

! btidã: John H. Armstrong, MD, • Surgeon & Seaelary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest Slate In the 

April 19, 2013 

James lvi. Maister, R.Ph. 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 

Re: Complaint No. 2010-19143 
Respondent: James M. Maister, R.Ph. 

Dear Mr. Maister: 

Pursuant to section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, you requested a copy of the Department's 
investigative file. Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, provides in part: 

The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the 
department are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) until 10 days after probable 
cause has been found to exist by the probable cause panel or by the department, or until 
the regulated professional or subject of the investigation waives his or her privilege of 
confidentiality, whichever occurs first. Upon completion of the investigation and a 
recommendation by the department to find probable cause, and pursuant to a written 
request by the subject or the subject's attorney, the department shall provide the subject 
an opportunity to inspect the investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the 
subject a copy of the investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may 
inspect or receive a copy of any expert witness report or patient record connected with 
the investigation if the subject agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 
information received under this subsection until 10 days after probable cause is found 
and to maintain the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to s. 456.057.. 

Attached for your review is an Acknowledgement of and Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality. 
Please sign and return the enclosed form to my office as soon as possible. The signed confidentiality 
agreement will be placed in our file. If you have any questions, please give me a call at (850) 245-4444 
x 8103. 

Respectfully, 

c..asey Cowan 
Assistalit General Counsel 

Enclosure; Confidentiality Agreement 

Florida Depwtanent of Health iidasHoalth.com 
of the GeneS CowS • ProsaSon SeF*es Unit ITFER±eathyftA 

4052 Bald Cypiess Way, Bin C65 Tallahassee, Fl. 32399-1701 lealth 
PHONE: 850t245-4444 FAX 850!245-4E83 fldoh 



Acknowledgement of and 
Agreement to Maintain Patient Confidentiality 

I, 

___________________________, 

am the Subject of an investigation by the Department of Health. 

As the Subject of such an investigation, I am entitled to inspect or receive a copy of the investigative 

report, including any expert witness report or patient records connected with the investigation pursuant 

to Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, if I agree in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any 

information received under this provision, until 10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain 

the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to Section 456.057, Florida Statutes. 

I understand the cost associated with duplicating x-rays and I want ( do not want ( to 

receive a copy of any x-rays that are contained within the Investigative file. 

SIGNED this 

____ 

day of 

__________________,2013. 

James M. Maister, R.Ph. 
2010-19143 





STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 

Office: Area VI Tampa Date of Case: 10-05-10 Case Number: 201019143 
Subject: JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH Source: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
4510 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 
813-545-9446 (C) 

Prefix: License #: Profession: Board: Report Date: 
2201 34202 Pharmacist Pharmacy 10-28-10 
Period of Investigation: 10-08-10through 10-28-10 Type of Report: FINAL 
Alleged Violation: 465016(1 )(d)2.3.(e)(O(m)(r), F.S., 5. 456.072(1 )(a)(m)(z), F.S.: 2.The misuse or abuse of any 
medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in chapter 893. 3. Any abnormal physical or mental condition which 
threatens the safety of persons to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs... (e)Violating chapter 499; 
21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal 1 Drug, and Cosmetic Act;... (i)Compounding, dispensing, or distributing 
a legend drug, including any controlled substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy... 
(m)Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of illness, use of drugs, narcotics, 
chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or physical condition... (r)Violating any provision of this 
chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto... (a)Making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of the licensee's profession... (m)Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent 
representations in or related to the practice of a profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a 
profession... (z)Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of alcohol, 
drugs, narcotics, chemicals... 

Synopsis: This investigation is predicated upon receipt of a Case Summary, Exhibit #1, based upon complaint 
from Department of Health. On 09-30-10 JAMES M. MAISTER, R.PH (PS 34202) was arrested for felony 
under Ch 893.13(7)(a)9. FS (Obtain controlled substance by fraud). In August and September, 2010 
MAISTER. presented and had filled prescriptions for Norco at a pharmacy in Wesley Chapel, Florida. The 
physician noted on the prescriptions denied writing them. 

MAISTER was notified of the investigation by letter dated 10-05-10(Exhibit #2) to the address of record and 
was provided a copy of the Case Summary and original documents that initiated the t' 

C) 
A check of DOH computer licensure records revealed MAISTER is currently licensed as a A 
copy of MAISTER's licensure printout is attached, Exhibit #3. 

:, 
The patient notification letter was not sent since there was no direct patient involvement. 

'0 rrj 
MAISTER is not represented by an attorney. . C\) 

On 10-27-10 Investigator TROUPE conducted an interview of MAISTER and in summary the allegations 
were concured. 

Related Case(s): 2010-19119 

Investigator/Date: 10-28-10 ...4 rj Approved lDate: tO —( O 
Victor R. Troupe !\ Babette S. Agett, TI —115 

_____ 

Medical Malpractice Investigator, Tl-123 U'- Investigation Supervisor 

Distribution: HQ/ISU I 

iT 7 £ 
1 





DON INVESTIGATIVE RE. JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

* 14. Documents obtained from lsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 10-15-10 
170-172 

* 15. JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-06-99 173-174 

* 16. Documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 10-15-10 
175 

* 17. Florida Department of Health Physician Prescription Affidavits -179 

*EXHIBITS CONTAIN INFORMATION WHICH IDENTIFIES PATIENT(S) BY NAME AND ARE 
SEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 456.057(1O)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES 

records are sealed pursuant to Section 456.057(10)(a), Florida Statutes and copies of 
same are not maintained in the Tampa Investigative Services office 

Page 3 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE , JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

INVESTIGATIVE DETAILS 

SUMMARY OF EXHIBITS/RECORDS/DOCUMENTS 

Exhibit #4 is a facsimile request to PRN to determine if MAISTER has enrol led in, or is participating in 
the PRN program. PRN response via facsimile on 10-27-10 is that "Yes, Mr. MAISTER is under 
contract with PRN". 

Exhibit #5 is a copy of Subpoena Duces Tecum A-0065688 directed to University Community 
Hospital Human Resources Department for copies of JAMES M. MAISTER's, R.Ph personnel 
records. 

Exhibit #6 is JAMES M. MAISTER's, R.Ph personnel records received via United States Postal 
Service on 10-22-10 with certification of completeness of records. Pertinent documents consist of: 

• Termination Notification Form of MAISTER with an effective date of 10-1 8-1 0. 
• Letter of resignation by MAISTER dated 10-18-10 addressed to CAROL PAZOS, Director 

of Human Resources. 
Typed statement from unsigned writer. Statement documents: "...Adminstration has 
reviewed the situation including the theft of our prescription pad and the illegal use of that 
prescription pad. The decision of the organization is to terminate employment at the end of 
the FMLA. That means that Tuesday, 10/19 will be last date of employment Jim 
asked if he could resign and I told him I would accept his resignation..." 

• Typed unsigned and undated statement: "At 8 am on Thursday 9/23, Mr. JAMES 
MAISTER, presented himself to me with a request to self-report a drug addiction. Mr. 
MAISTER has been employed as a full-time pharmacist since 06-12-07. At the timetf his 
hire he presented documentation that his petition to terminate probation was to be heard by 
the Board of Pharmacy and Drugs for a past reported issue. 

During our meeting, he confessed he had a drug problem with hydrocodone. He stated 
that he had forged Dr. CANNELLA's signature on two occasions using UCH prescription 
pads totaling 150 pills. He stated he had not diverted any drugs from UCH... 

I contacted PRN and via speaker phone, Mr. MAISTER self-reported to the board. He was 
given the names of 3 psychiatrists and instructed to contact one of them for an evaluation. 
I told him that he could not return to work until he could present a contract from PRN and 
that I would contact ELAINE COPELAND for FMLA paperwork. And should his FMLA 
expire prior to obtaining a contract, he would be terminated and his future employment 
eligibility would be considered. He said he had used a good amount of FMLA already due 
to care for his wife and his own health issues. He then left my office..." 

• University Community Hospital Policy on prescription pad dispensing and control 

Exhibit #7 is documents obtained from Target Pharmacy #1382 on 10-15-10; Documents consist 
of: 

• Pharmacy profile of MAISTER 

Date Rx Written Fill Date Drug Physician Quantity 
08-16-2010 08-17-2010 Hydrococ/APAP 

10-325 Tab 
XAVIER 
CANNELLA 

90 

08-16-2010 06-29-2010 .Hydrococ / APAP 
10-325 Tab 

XAVIER 
CANNELLA 

90 

09-07-2010 09-08-2010 Hydrococ/APAP 
10-325 Tab 

XAVIER 
CANNELLA 

90 

Page 4 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

Photo copies of prescriptions 
o Dated 08-16-10 for Norco g #90. One by mouth every six hours as 

needed. Refill documented as one. 
o Dated 09-07-10 for Norco 10/325mg #90. One by mouth every six hours as 

needed. Refill documented as two. 
o Pharmacy Signature Retrieval Signature Reports. 

Exhibit #8 is are documents obtained from KATHY A. MOORMAN, R.Ph. I Pharmacy Director of 
University community Hospital; 1 Florida, Documents is a PYXIS report of MAISTER from 
10-01-10 to 10-15-10. No narcotics noted as retrieved by MAISTER. 

Exhibit #9 is JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-30-1 0. 
Report documents MAISTER was arrested on 09-30-10 for obtaining controlled substance by 
fraud. 

Exhibit #10 is a Pasco Sheriffs Office Offense Incident Report of JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER 
Individual Charge Report Number 10-059683-01. Report documents: "...Onthe dates of August 
17 and September 8, 2010, the suspect, JAMES MAISTER presented and had filled, two forged 
prescriptions for Norco (Hydrocodone) at the Target Pharmacy located at 1201 Bruce B. Downs 
Blv. In Wesley Chapel, Florida. Additionally, on August 29, he presented the forged prescription of 
August 17 for a refill at the same Target Pharmacy. MAISTER paid for and picked up the 
medications as forged on the prescription forms, leaving the Target Pharmacy..." 

Exhibit #11 is a document obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 
10-15-10. Document consists of a Pasco County Complaint Affidavit for arrest of MAISTER on 09- 
30-10. Report documents: "...JAMES MAISTER admitted that he forged three prescriptions, 
signing as the doctor and did acquired possession of Norco (Hydrocodone) a controlled 
substance, by misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, contrary to Florida Statutes form the Target store 
Pharmacy, located at 1201 Bruce B. Downs in Wesley Chapel, Florida, Pasco County..." 

Exhibit #12 is JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 10-08-02. 
Report documents MAISTER was arrested on 10-06-02 for obtaining controlled substance by 
fraud. 

• Case Number 2002-CF-01 6551 Count One obtaining controlled substance by fraud. 
• Criminal Report Affidavit! Notice to Appear. 
• Uniform Plea, Acknowledgement and Waiver of rights form. 
• Judgment form. Form indicates MAISTER entered a plea of guilty and that adjudication of 

guilt was withheld and was placed on Drug offender probation for 16 months. 

Exhibit #13 is a document obtained from Hilisborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 
10-19-10. 

• Case Number 99-CM-024577 
o Offense date: 09-06-1 999 
o Battery (Domestic Violence) 
o Plea: No plea entered 

• Case Number 99-CM-02575 
o Offense date: 03-06-1 999 
o Obtaining property for worthless check 
o Plea: Nob Centendere 
o Suspended dep. Closed 

Page 5 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE 1 JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

Case 00-CM-006684 
o Offense date: 03-03-1 999 
o Obtaining property for worthless check 
o Plea: Not guilty 
o Finding: NoIIe-Prosequi 

Exhibit #14 is a document obtained from lsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 
10-15-10. Document is a No Information form. Form states: "The State Attorney, having taken 
testimony under oath at a State Attorney investigation, concludes that the facts and circumstances 
revealed do not warrant prosecution at this time". 

Exhibit #15 is JAMES MATTHEW MAISTER Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 09-06-99. 
Report documents MAISTER was arrested on 09-06-99 for obtaining controlled substance by 
fraud. 

Exhibit #16 are certified documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida 
on 10-15-10 for Case Number 99O112OMMAES. Form is a No Information from and documents: 
"The State Attorney, having taken testimony under oath at a State Attorney investigation, 
concludes that the facts and circumstances revealed do not warrant prosecution at this time". 

Exhibit #17 are Florida Department of Health Physician Prescription Affidavits signed by XAVIER 
CANNELLA, M.D. documenting prescriptions dated 09-07-10 for Norco 10/325 #90 and 
prescription 08-16-10 for Norco 10/325 # made to JAMES MAISTER are forgeries. 

Page 6 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE 1 .JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

INTERVIEW OF KATHY A. MOORMAN, R.Ph ) 
University Community Hospital 
3100 East Fletcher Avenue 
Tampa, Florida 33613-4658 
813-615-7114 

On Friday, October 15, 2010 Investigator TROUPE met with and interviewed KATHY A. 
MOORMAN at her place of employment University Community Hospital. MOORMAN stated that 
she is the Pharmacy Director. 

MOORMAN was asked to explain in detail her knowledge of this incident concerning 
JAMES M. MAISTER, R.Ph. She replied she was informed by the Human Resource that 
MAISTER had self reported himself for obtaining a prescription pad. MOORMAN said she was 
informed that MAISTER had obtained a hospital prescription pad and filled in a doctor's name and 
used the forged prescription to obtain control substances. 

MOORMAN said she questioned MOORMAN in the presence of a human resource 
personnel. She said MOORMAN stated he had used the prescription pad on two separate 
occasions. MOORMAN said MAISTER stated he had contacted the physician and self reported 
himself to PRN. She said MAISTER was very apologetic. MOORMAN said she thanked 
MAISTER. 

MOORMAN was asked how did MAISTER obtain the prescriptions pad. She said 
MAISTER obtained the prescription pads from the hospital. MOORMAN said she has not seen the 
forged script. She said the scripts belonged to Dr. XAVIER CANNERLA. MOORMAN was,asked. 
if MAISTER mentioned pharmacies the prescriptions were used at. She said the pharmacy. 
location was mentioned in the news and police report. MOORMAN was asked how long is/was 
MAISTER employed with University Community Hospital. She replied MAISTER was hired on 06- 
17-07 and is currently still employed as of today (October 15, 2010). MOORMAN said she hired 
MAISTER knowing he had been in the PRN program. MOORMAN was asked if MAISTER had 
any problems. She stated MAISTER adopted a five year old girl; sold his house; bought a new 
house; his wife was diagnosed with a serious illness and has been in & out of the hospital; he was 
in the hospital very sick with heart problems; wife can't drive and figured out was to get his wife 
around. 

MOORMAN was asked if there were any noted missing narcotics associated with 
MAISTER. She replied none associated with MAISTER. MOORMAN was asked if there were any 
narcotic discrepancies associated with MAISTER. She replied no PYXIS discrepancies associated 
with MAISTER. MOORMAN was asked if MAISTER had access to narcotics. She replied as a role 
the pharmacist never go into the system unless it is an emergency. MOORMAN said the 
pharmacist techs pulls drugs and places in bag and then initials and scan drug name. She said 
the pharmacist verify the correct drug, strength, amount and scan initials and then puts in a bin. 
She said the pharmacy tech then pulls the drug out of the bin and take to the floor. MOORMAN 
said when the tech arrives to the floor they scan the PYXIS machine and the correct draw opens 
and the tech counts the number of drugs currently present which is a blind count. She said the 
PYXIS either accepts or denies the number enters. MOORMAN said a second attempt is given 
and if the correct the product is closed in the draw. She said if incorrect the pharmacy tech 
notifies the leader of the unit and pharmacy director. MOORMAN said the Nurse Manager 
determines who had prior actions and if warrant an investigation is initiated. She said usually the 
count is correct. MOORMAN said the PYXIS system is a very safe system. MOORMAN said the 
PYXIS is very good in preventing diversion. 

Page 7 



DOH INVESTIGATIVE RE. JRT CASE NUMBER: 201019143 

INTERVIEW OF JAMES M. MAISTERI R.PH. ) 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 335.43 
813-545-9446 (C) 

On Wednesday, October 27, 2010 Investigator TROUPE conducted a telephone interview 
with JAMES M. MAISTER, R.Ph. MAISTER said he has been a pharmacist for approximately 25 
years. He said he was last employed with University Community Hospital Tampa for three years. 
MAISTER said currently he is not working and is enrolled in the PRN program. He said he initially 
called PRN on 23 September 2010 and received an evaluation the day after and withdrew from 
practice. MAISTER was asked if he planned on continuing practicing as a pharmacist. He replied 
"yes" once/if PRN clears him. MAISTER said he would like to work in a non-dispensing role. 

MAISTER was asked to explain in detail his knowledge of this complaint. He replied he 
wrote prescriptions for himself to have filled and was wrong. MAISTER said he was enrolled in 
PRN from 2002 through 2007 and continued to be in compliance until early June 2010. 

MAISTER said he had dental procedures which consisted of two root canals, extraction and 
bridge. He said he was prescribed Vicodin. MAISTER said at the end of June 2010 he was 
hospitalized for hypertension crisis and a minor stroke. He said he was also diagnosed with 
severe central and obstructed sleep apnea. MAISTER said while in the hospital he fell and injured 
his ankle and back and was given Vicodin while in the hospital and upon discharge. He said at 
this point is when his addiction took off. MAISTER said then he felt as though he needed the 
medication. He said his addiction was in charge and he did what he did. MAISTER said he wrote 
prescriptions for himself. MAISTER was asked how many prescriptions did hewrote. I-fe replied 
he wrote two prescriptions with one with a refill. 

MAISTER stated that he is sorry for what he did. He said he knows whathe needs to do to. 
stay clean and sober and is more than willing to do so. MAISTER said he will do what he needs to 
do to stay clean. 

Page 8 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


. ———-_____ -.—— 

• . 
PATIENT INFORMATION 

RECORDS SEALED 

Patient Records that identify by name are 
sealed pursuant to Section .t 

COMPLAINT #: PS 201 0-1 9143 

PATIENT: 

SUBJECT: JAMES M. MAISTER. 

R. Troupe 

EXHIBIT: 17!8,9!12,15 & 17 

One of Six 
wC9S 

OCT 2 



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

Charlie CrIst 
Governor 

October 8, 2010 
CONFIDENTIAL : 
James M. Maister, R.Ph. 
4810 Diamonds Palm Loop 
Wesley Chapel, Florida 33543 

Case Number: P32010-19143 

Dear Mr. Maister: 

We are currently investigating the enclosed document received by the Department of Health. This 
investigation was after it was determined that you may have violated thePharmacy Practice 
Act, 

Within 20 days of receiving this letter, you may: 

* submit a written response to the address below; or 
* call our office to schedule an interview. 

Please provide a copy of your curriculum vitae and identify your specialty even if you choose not to 
submit a response. Include the above-referenced case number in any correspondence that you send. 

Florida law requires that this case and all investigative information remain confidential until 10 days 
after the Probable Cause Panel has determined that a violation occurred or you give up the right to 
confidentiality. Therefore, the contents of the investigation cannot be disclosed to you or the general 
public. 

You may make a written request for a copy of the investigative file and it will be sent to you when the 
investigation is complete. You may submit an additional written response to the information in the 
investigative file within 20/45 days of receipt. Your response (if one is provided), along with the 
information in the file, will be considered byihe panel when determining whether a formal 
administrative complaint should be filed in this matter. 

You are not required to answer any questions or give any statement, and you have the right to be 
represented by an attomey. It is not possible to estimate how long it will take to complete this 
investigation because the circumstances of each investigation differ. 

The mission of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance is to protect the public through healthcare 
licensure, enforcement and information. If you have any questions, please call us at 813-871-7443. 

2NRT 
Enclosure ! CONFIDENTIAL 

nv Form 354 Division of Medical Quality Assurance, Investigative Services Unit 
Created 06/07 6800 North Dale Mabry, Suite 220, Tampa, Florida 33614 
Revised 10/07 813/873-4777 

Visit us online at doh, state. fi. us * MQA Enforcement 

Ana M. Viamonte Ros, M.D., MPH. 

- 

State Surgeon General 

Victor R. Troupe 
Medical Malpractice Investigator 



Charlie Crist 
Governor 

Case No: 201019143 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Ma M. Viamonte Ros, MD.. MPH 
State Surgeon General fl a. a an 'a 

OCT 0 7 2010 

DOHIMQA le IS 

Please use this number in all correspondence with the Department concerning this matter. 

RESPONDENT INFORMATION 

License No: 
Name: 
Address: 

Home Phone: 

34202 
James M Maister 
4810 DIAMONDS PALM LOOP 
Wesley Chapel, FL 33543 

SOURCE OF INFORMATION 

Name: Department Of Health 
Address: 
Home Phone: 

REPORTED INFORMATION 

Receive Date: 1010612010 
Responsible Party: halO7 
Classification Code: 

Source Code: 5 

Status Code: 10 
Incident Date: 09/30/2010 

Form Code: I 
Priority: 1 

Patient Name: 

Possible Code(s): 33 

Summary: 
Possible violation of, s. 465.016(1)(d)2.3,(e)(i)(m)(r), F.S., s. 466.072(1)(a)(m)(z), F.S. 

On 9/30/10 Subject (PS 34202) was arrested for felony under Ch 893.13(7)(a)9. FS (Obtain 
controlled substance by fraud). Subject maybe impaired. Analyzed by: Leo Paulson, 10/5/10 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-75 •Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 . 850-245-4339 Voice • 
850-488-0796 Fax 

CASE SUMMARY 

Profession: 2201 Pharmacist 

) 

u 



M. limes: Wesley Chapel pharmacist accused of fraud 

- 

Page 1 of 1 

It 
October 1,2010 

Wesley Chape' pharmacist accused of fraud 
Times staff 

WESLEY CHAPEL - A pharmacist is accused of using stolen and forged prescription forms to get , 
James M. Maister, 45, of Wesley Chapel was arrested Thursday and charged with three counts of attempting to 
obtain controlled substances by fraud. 

The Florida Department of Health shows Maister's pharmacy license is clear and active and that he works at 
University Community Hospital. 

Documents state Maister's license was revoked in 2002 for fraudulently obtaining Buprenex, a narcotic controlled 
substance, and his license was reinstated in 2003. 

Maister's told a deputy he has an addiction problem and has enrolled in a treatment program, according to a report 
from the Pasco County Sheriffs Office. 

He was released from the Pasco County jail ' $6,000 bail. 

St Petersburg Times 

2010 St. Petersburg Times. Permission aranted for up to 5 copies. All rights reserved. 
You may forward thisarhcle orgetadditional permissions bytyping http: :L:;opvriuh .c"t/3. SE I 125.i52 intoarry 
web browser. St. Petersburg Times and St. Petersburg Times logos are registered trademarks of St. Petersburg Times The copyright logo is a 

registered trademark of Copyright, Inc. 

http://license.icopyright.net/user viewFreeUse.act?fuid=MTAxOTAxNji /o3D 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of all people in Flonda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Michael Alan Donato 
1305 Tradition Circle #308 
Melbourne, FL 32901 

RE: Pharmacist Examination Application 

Dear Mr. Donato: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 am. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 8501245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

ldasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTLJBE: fldoh 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naflon 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

January 23, 2014 

SI 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


22ct 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 
www.doh.state.fl. uslmqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #2 -PHARMACIST EXAMINATION APPLICATION 

FOR U.S. AND PUERTO RICO GRADUATES 
FEE: $295.00 

Please print or leQibly. 

1. Biographical data 
Last name First name Middle name 

T?i,,v'A'io 
Street address ML— Mailin Address Ci State — Zip 

# $o8 
Work address PL — Practice Location Ci State Zip 

Home phone number Business hone number E-mail address 

72,- 
Date of birth Place of birth 

I//€9///97; 
2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2. Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for Iicensure. 
SEX: 0 Female 
RACE: 0 Black DHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separate sheet. if necessary. 

Yes - NoK 
Name Date 

4. Name of University, College or School of Pharmacy attended 

5. Date of graduation 6. Type of degree earned 
7. Have you ever been licensed as an 
intern in Florida? 

p Yes_____ No 

Intern 

0 5 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 
Rule 64616-26.203, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 9 Licensing and 
Auditing ServiCES 

'I 

U (I £'JJ-J 
/ ri 

BT: 3009073 

VL: 913025018 

295.00 
Type; F 



medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ...__....._—.--- 
YesX No 

Yes No Date 

all experience earned as an intern. If you have been a registered pharmacist for at least one(1) 

year, list only your pharmacist experience. If you graduated after January 1, 2001 with a Pharm.D. 

Degree, it is not necessary to complete this section. Note: you must submit one 1) Internship or Work 

Experience Form - Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed below. Use a separate sheet, if 

Dates Employer Location Total houre 

I I 

13. List all state(s) in which you have held gj currently hold a pharmacist license. Note: you must 

submit one (1) Licensure Verification Form (Item #5) for each state listed . Use a separate sheet, 

if necessary. 
State License number I 

Date issued 

- c' 

.61 

14. Special testing accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due to 

a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes, complete the 

Application for Candidates Requesting Special Testing Accommodations Accordance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act," form DH-MQA 4000, 6108, which may be downloaded from the 

Department's at .tttm. or you may contact 

Testing Services by phone at (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an application. All requests 

must be in writing and include supporting documents. 

Yes NoX" 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? ' No 

(You must indude all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. 

Onving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

• DH-MQA 101,09/09 Page 3 of 9 

Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.G. 



20. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional 

in this state or any other ? 
YesX No 

______ 

21. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes 

22. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

contro') or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, go to question ) 
Z4' 

Yes No 

24. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 

date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 
Yes No 

24a. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6) (a), Florida . 
Yes NoX 

24b. If "yes" to 23, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes 
24c. If "yes" to 23, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

documentation). 

Yes ' 
2LHave you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid ? 
Yes NoX 
25a. If "yes" to 25, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes______ No______ 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 

409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 27.) 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 Page 5 of 9 

Rule 64B16-26.203, F.A.C. 



Yes NoK 

27. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

28. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer 28a and 28b.) 

Yes .X' 
28a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

yesX No 

28b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

29. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

Yes_______ ' (If yes, provide supporting documentation) 

30. If "yes" to any of the questions 23 through 29 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled in 

an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

YesX No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-29, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any 

material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial 

fifing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the 
department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
shall form the basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize 

them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 

institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacist's license may be revoked or 

suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in 

n a plication for a license or permit, as set forti) in section 456.01 5(2)(a), F.S. 

/Ap Dale 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 101, 09/09 Page 6 of 9 
Rule 64b16-26.203, F.A.C. 



321-242-7350 p.2 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 • www.doh.state.ftus/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

Please print or type legibly. 
Part . — To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College ci Pharmacy for completion of 
Part II below. 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 4/ 
Maiden NamelSurname Date of Graduation 

2/ 
Mailing Address City State Zip 

/8,5 # -2Mo / 
Part II. — To be completed by an official of the university 
Name of School/College of Pharmacy 

ZSthn's 
Mailing Address City State Zip 

(Lflc 
Type of Degree Awarded Date Degree Awarded Dates of Attendance 

OV SUCflU U\ i From: 
To: 

The information recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 
Failure to include the school seal may result in a delay in processing the applicant's application. 

tJ joanneA.Llerandi 
University Registrar 

Title Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN -04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 1 of 1 

Rule B4816-26.205, F AC. 

Aug 19 13 04:37p ANTHONY DONTO 

9 

n 

(SCHOOL 
SEAL) 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Cypress Bin COl Tallahassee, FL 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 www.doh.stateiLuslmqalpharmacy 

H ITEM #4 - INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE FORM (FORM B) 

3. Pharmacy infonnation 
Supervising Pharmacist's name Ucense number 

Pharmacy name number S/P p i-i 2.. I I 

Street address City State Zip 
. 

Phone number 4. Dates of experience 

- - From: 

5. Average number of houra per week 6. Total houre of experience 

No rnore.than 50 bows per week if you are a student and no mole than 60 after graduation Is ) 
S Signature Date 

This report is a correct statement of fact. The above information was taken from the records of the above 
named ph acy and are avail for inspection by the Board of Pharmacy. 

+ J 
tur/Supervisor's Sig 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 
PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 101,09109 
Rule 64B16-26.203, FAC 

Page 8 of 9 

DEC 052013 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Please print or type legibly. 
1. Biographical information ... . 

Applicant name Internlpharmacist license number Phone number: 
P$ 

Stree taddress ... City Stale Zip 

2. Have you submitted an application for the Florida Pharmacist Examination? It yes, please Indicate 
date. 

Yes______ NoX Date 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTUNED BELOW UNDER 
ThE SUPERVISION OF: 



THE UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK ,- 

THE STATE EDUCATION DEPAP.TMENT 
I 

DIVISION OF PROFESSIONAL LICENSING SERVICES 
89 WASHINGTON AVENUE 

ALBANY, NEW YORK 12234 

This is to certify that according to the records of the Division of 
Professional Licensing Services, New York State Education Department 
Albany, New York, DONATO MICHAEL ALAN 
was issued license/certificate number 043731 for the practice of 
PHARMACY On 09/05/95. 

Our records also indicate the following information: 
Date of birth: 08/18/72 
School attended: ST JOHN'S UNIVERSITY-MAIN 
Date of graduation: 05/21/95 
Degree earned: BS 

Program was acceptable in accordance with the NYS Regulations 
of the Commissioner of Education. Requirements met at the 
time of licensure. 

Basis of licensure: 
DATE *PT 1 PT 2 

06/95 00114 00088 

*NABPLEX 
EXMS 

A license is valid during the life of the holder unless revoked, 
annulled or suspended by the Board of Regents. A licensee must reg- 

periodically with this Department to practice in this state. 

Currently Registered: NO Last reg period 07/31/01 
Address: 4007 ESTANCIA WAY 

- MELBOURNE FL 32934-0000 
Disciplinary No. charges have been preferred against 

this licensee 
Comments: 

I, Cathy Hanczaryk, Principal Clerk, Division of Professional 
Licensing Services of the New York State Education Department, do 
hereby state that as Principal Clerk of said Division, I have legal 
custody of the official records of the Division of Professional 
Licensing Services and to the best of my knowledge, the aforesaid 
information is true and correct. 

10/18/13 
Clerk 

RECEIVED 

OCT 28 2013 

I 

PT 3 

00086 

AT LEAST SIX MONTHS EXPERIENCE 



Board of Pharmacy Page 1 of 1 

Board of Pharmacy 

License Details 

Press "Previous Record" to display the previous license. 

Press "Nest Record" to display the next license. 

Press "Search Results" to return to the Search Results list. 

Press "New Search Criteria" to do another search of this type. 

Press "New Search' to start a sew search. 

License Number: 13949 Current Date: 12/ 
Name: Donato, Michael Alan 

License Type: Registered 
License Status: Closed 

txpiry Date: 10/31/2003 
1st License Date: 11/26/1997 
Disciplinary Status: None 

If the information indicates that the person or business has Yes' and you would like additional information regarding the disciplinary action, please coi 
shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov or at (800) 364-2081. 

https ://pharmacy.bop.nv.gov/datamart/details.do?anchor=c6e8f60.0. 1 12/19/2013 



ALLEN R. GROSSMAN 
FILENO.: 81759 

Grossman, Furlow 
& Bayó, LLC 
ATTORNEYS 4T LAW 

.com 

ViA hAND DELI VERY 

November 5, 2013 

Florida Board of Phannacy 
C/O Mark Whitten 
Executive Director 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32314-3254 

NOV 052013 

Licensing and 
Auditing 

Enclosed is the application of Michael Donato, R.Ph. for licensure as a pharmacist by 

examination. Mr. Donato was previously licensed as a pharmacist in Florida in 1996. 

Unfortunately, in January of 2012, Mr. Donato entered a guilty plea to a single count of 

possession of hydrocodone pursuant to section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, a third degree 

felony. Shortly after his arrest and during the pendency of his criminal case, Mr. Donato 

entered into the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) program and successfully completed 

treatment at the Florida Recovery Center (UF/Shands), in Gainesville, Florida. In July 2012, 

Mr. Donato's pharmacist's license was disciplined by the Florida Board of Pharmacy as a 

result of the conduct related to his August 2011 arrest and his January 2012 criminal plea. 

(DOH Case No. 2012-02328) The Board's Final Order imposed an administrative fine of 

$2,000; costs of $1500; a requirement for him to successfully participate in PRN; a suspension 

of licensure until such time as Mr. Donato established his ability to practice safely; and a five 

year period of probation with terms. Based upon the report of the Medical Director of PRN, 

who described Mr. Donato as a model of recovery, the Board of Pharmacy voted at the same 

meeting to reinstate Mr. Donato's license and permit him to immediately return to practice 

under the probationary terms imposed. In July of this year, the Florida Department of Health 

denied renewal of Mr. Donato's Florida license pursuant to section 456.0635, Florida Statutes. 

He is now applying for a new pharmacy license in Florida pursuant to section 456.036(14), 

Florida Statutes, which provides that licensees denied renewal pursuant to section 456.0635, 

Florida Statutes, may re-establish licensure by applying for a new Florida license and the 

exemption provided in section 456.0635(2), Florida Statutes, for applicants for a license who 

were enrolled in an educational or training program on or before July 1, 2009. 

In addition to the other required documentation and payment of the $295.00 application 

fee (check #1246.), Mr. Donato has enclosed with his completed application supplemental 

answers addressing his impairment issues, his criminal matter (which has been ordered sealed 

by the Circuit Court) and his prior Florida disciplinary action. He has also provided copies of 

2022-2 Raymond Diehl Road, Tallahassee, FL 32308 . (850) 385.1314 . (850) 385-4240 (Fax) 

www.mgfblaw.com 

Re: Application of Michael Donato, R.Ph. 

Dear Mr. Whitten: 



Board of Pharmacy 
November 5, 2013 

Page 2 

certificates for more than 45 hours of approved CE, a copy of the notice of the Department of 

Health's denial of his application for renewal, a copy of the Board of Pharmacy's previous 

disciplinary Final Order, documentation of the underlying criminal matter, and a copy of his 

PRN contract. Documentation required directly from primary sources has also been requested. 

Please let us know if any additional documentation is required. 

Mr. Donato has remained in compliance with PRN and we have requested that PRN 

provide a letter in support of Mr. Donato's application for licensure. Such letter will be 

provided directly by PRN under separate cover. 

Mr. Donato's story is one of unfortunate circumstances stemming from an undiagnosed 

addiction. His actions under the influence of that addiction brought to a screeching halt the 

previously unblemished career of a respected and capable pharmacist. His story also includes 

his successful completion of treatment and rehabilitation and his enrollment and participation 

in PRN. He now seeks the opportunity to complete his return to being a significant contributor 

to the betterment of society as a pharmacist in Florida. 

Mr. Donato considers himself to be extremely fortunate to have made it through his 

course of addiction without ever having implicated the safety of his patients and has always 

considered himself to be a competent and ethical pharmacist. He practiced in Florida for over 

fifteen years before falling victim to his addiction and looks forward to the opportunity to 

return to his chosen career. Prior to his unfortunate experience with addiction and his 

inappropriate actions to feed that addiction, Mr. Donato had never been the subject of any civil, 

criminal or disciplinary action in any jurisdiction and as a result of that experience he has 

dedicated himself not only to his own continuing recovery, but also to re-establishing himself 

as a contributor to society both on a personal and a professional level. 

Thank you for taking the time and effort to handle and consider this matter fully. 

Sincerely, 

Allen R. Grossman 

enclosures 

cc: Michael Donato, R.Ph. 
Penelope Ziegler, M.D., Medical Director, PRN 



Dear Board of Pharmacy, 

I was initially prescribed hydrocodone several years ago when I was diagnosed with a painful 

foot condition called congenital tarsal coalition. My feet were always in pain, especially after 

standing or walking a great deal. The medication certainly helped, but it also ignited the disease 

of addiction in me. As a result, I was no longer able to get prescriptions to cover my increasing 

need. It has been postulated that being diagnosed as azoospermic and the depression that resulted 

from being told I could not father children may have also been a factor in this as well. I know 

that these things alone, should not lead a person to having a drug problem. However, added to 

having this previously undiagnosed disease of addiction, these issues sent my life into a tailspin. 

The medication served to kill the physical and emotional pain in my life. The situation spiraled 

out of control until I just couldn't take enough pills to numb the pain anymore. I needed help but, 

as with most people in my situation, never really had intention of getting it until something came 

along to stop the insanity. 

On August 23, 2011, as an employee of Publix Pharmacy, I was confronted by my supervisor, 

after I closed the pharmacy for the day. My boss, Don Pickens, suspected that I was diverting 

hydrocodone from the phannacy department. He was correct. I had a large quantity of pills 

hidden on my person and I was arrested arid initially charged with theft, possession and 

trafficking and spent the night in Brevard County jail. A phone call from the jail that night was 

the first time my wife and family learned about a problem I had been hiding from them. As 

terrible and humiliating as it was to have to spend the night in jail, there was a strange peace 

knowing that the suffering was finally over. 

Three days later on August 26, 2011, I checked myself into Florida Recovery Center's addiction 

program for healthcare professionals in Gainesville, FL. This is a minimum of a 90-day program 

and one of the leading programs in the country. It was "the greatest experience I never want to 

have again." I missed my wife, 7-month old daughter, and family terribly, but I am so very 

grateful that I was fortunate to have the opportunity most people with this problem don't get. The 

program taught me how to effectively cope with physical and emotional pain and how to accept 

life on life's terms. I was introduced to the AA program and realized the power of the AA 

fellowship. Putting it simply, I learned how to live again and how to enjoy life. My treatment 

culminated in serving 5 weeks as Senior Peer. The Senior Peer is the "leader" of the treatment 

community and he assists the treatment team in making treatment decisions. I completed my 

treatment and "graduated" on December 16, 2011. 

I then returned to my home in Melbourne, FL and signed a 5-year PRN monitoring contract and 

began to face my consequences. After investigating my case, the assigned prosecuting attorney 

reduced my charges to third degree theft and possession and required that I enter drug court. 

However, he was overruled by his supervisor, Wayne Holmes, who refused to offer drug court 

out of what is understood to be a personal aversion to the drug court process. Therefore, I was 

obliged to plead guilty to the third degree charges which consequently has resulted in my 

application for renewal of my pharmacy license being denied. Upon entering a guilty plea, 

adjudication was withheld and 1 was given 12 months of probation. After six months, my 

probation was terminated early for good behavior/compliance and then my arrest record was 

subsequently sealed. My pharmacy license was temporarily suspended. After appearing before 



the Board of Pharmacy in June 2012, my license was reinstated and placed on probation for 5 

years. Knowing that renewal of my license might be a problem, 1 chose not to reenter practice 

until my licensure issues were sorted out. In order to obtain medical insurance for my family, I 

secured ajob as a barista at Starbucks in April 2012. 1 am still employed there today and I feel 

that the job is another important factor in the success of my recovery although it does not come 

close to meeting my financial needs. Therefore, I very much want to return to practice as a 

pharmacist which is my chosen profession. 

As of this writing, I have been clean and sober for over 2 years. I have been in full compliance 

with my PRN contract and the terms of my settlement agreement with the Department of Health. 

I have shed almost 80 pounds over this time in order to reduce the weight burden on my feet and 

obtained braces for both feet/ankles to wear when I anticipate having to stand for long periods of 

time. I have also continued to use meditation techniques I learned in treatment as a mechanism to 

relax and escape pain in a healthy way. I've attached a "recovery resume" that I put together. I 

feel that this could be helpful in summarizing key factors that are pertinent to my successful 

recovery. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Alan Donato 



Michael Donato: Recovery Resume 

1) Having pleaded guilty to third degree theft and possession in January 2012, adjudication was withheld 

and I was placed on 12 month probation and was released from probation after just six months for 100% 

compliance and voluntary service. 

2)1 have made full restitution to Publix. 

3) My records have been sealed. 

4)1 have been clean & sober for over 2 years. My sobriety date is August 27, 2011. My new life started 

by completing a 3-month treatment program for medical professionals at Florida Recovery Center 

(UF/Shands) in Gainesville, FL. I graduated and was "coined out" on December 16, 2011. 

5) My treatment culminated in serving 5 weeks as the senior peer of the treatment community. The 

senior peer serves as a mentor for the other men and assists the treatment team in making treatment 

decisions. 

6)1 have been dutifully employed at Starbucks since April 2012 in order to provide medical coverage for 

my wife and child. 

7) Owing to the uncertainties associated with my circumstances, I have not practiced pharmacy since 

voluntarily surrendering my license in August 2011. However, I am most desirous of resuming my 

professional career so that I may recover from the serious financial hardships I have caused myself and 

those who have supported me. 

8)1 have complied with all the terms of my five year PRN contract which runs concurrently with my DOH 

probation. 

9)1 became an election official for Brevard County elections in October 2012. 

10)1 have donated 19 double units of platelets since April 2013. 

11)1 currently volunteer with the Sea Turtle Preservation Society. 

12)1 currently sponsor 3 men, all healthcare professionals, in recovery (PH, RS, and AB) and help them 

stay sober. 

13) In addition, I am proud to say that I helped to save the life of JM and her unborn child after receiving 

a random call for help from her attorney. I encouraged JM to enter treatment and sign a PRN contract. 

Against the odds, JM and her baby are alive and well today. 

15) At my initial appearance before the Board of Pharmacy, Dr. J. Rivenbark, (Medical Director of PRN) 

testified that I was a "model of recovery". The Board eventually reinstated my license to practice 

pharmacy in June 2012. 

16) In addition to the required (30) CE credits for the biennium, I have completed numerous additional 

CE credits. 



Final No. S -MQA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
FILED 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
putv Agency 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. 
CASE NO.: 20 12-02328 

LICENSE NO.: PS 31230 

MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

_______________________________________________________________ 

I 

FINAL ORDER APPROVING SEULEMENT AGREEMENI 

THIS CAUSE came before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the "Board") pursuant to 

Section 120.57(4), Fionda Statutes, on June 5,2012 in Deerfleld Beach, Florida, for 

consideration of a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit A) entered into between the 

parties in the above-styled cause. Upon consideration of the Settlement Agreements the 

documents submitted in support thereof, and being otherwise advised in the it is hereby 

ordered and adjudged: 

(1) The Settlement Agreement as submitted is hereby approved, adopted and 

incorporated herein by reference. Accordingly, the parties shall adhere to and abide by all the 

terms of the Settlement Agreement. 

(2) Respondent'S license was reinstated at the Board meeting and he was placed on 

probation pursuant to the terms of the agreement. 

(3) As authorized by the Settlement Agreement the Board finds that the costs of 

investigation and prosecution are $1500. 

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with the Clerk of the Department of 

Health. 

DONE AND 
2012. 

0 



0 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

for 

Cynthia Griffin, PharmD, Chair 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW UNLESS ) 
A PARTY WHO IS ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER IS ENTITLED TO 

JUDICIAL REVIEW, UNLESS WAIVED, PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA 

STATUTES. PROCEEDINGS ARE GOVERNED BY THE FLORIDA RULES OF 

APPELLATE PROCEDURE. SUCH PROCEEDINGS ARE COMMENCED BY FILING ONE 

COPY OF THE NOTICE OF APPEAL WITh THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE 

O 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND A SECOND COPY, ACCOMPANIED BY FILING FEES 

PRESCRIBED BY LAW, WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS, FIRST DISTRICT, 

OR WITH THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE APPELLATE DISTRICT WHERE 

THE PARTY RESIDES. THE NOTICE OF APPEAL MUST BE FILED WITHIN THIRTY 

(30) DAYS OF RENDITION OF THE ORDER TO BE REVIEWED. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Final Order has been 

provided by U.S. Mail to Michael Alan Donato, R.Ph. at 4007 Estancia Way, Melbourne, Florida 

32934; Edwin Bayo at Grossman, Furlow and Bayo LLC, 2022 Raymond Diehi Rd # 2, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32308-3881 by interoffice delivery to John Truitt, Assistant General 

Counsel, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65, Tallahassee, FL 32399- 

3265, and by interoffice delivery to Allison Dudley, Assistant Attorney General, Department of 

Legal Affairs, The Capitol, PL-0I, Tallahassee, Fl 32399-1050 of 

0 



,2012. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 

C 

0 



p 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH MAY 2 

9116 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

V. 
CASE NO. 2012-02328 

MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, R.PH., 

RESPONDENT. 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the parties offer this 

o Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy (Board) as dispoSttIOfl of 

the Administrative Complaints, attached as Composite Exhlbft A, In lieu of 

further administrative proceedingS. 

FACTS 

1. At all time materIal to this matter, MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, 

R.Ph., was a licensed pharmadst in the state of Florida, having been Issued 

license number PS 31230. Respondent'S mailing address of reard is 4007 

Estanda Way, Melbourne, Florida 32934. 

DOH v. Michael Alan Donatb. RPh 

No. 2012M2328 

0 



0 
2. On or about 7, 2012, Respondent was suspended by 

Emergency Suspension Order pursuant to SectIon 456.074(1), Florida 

Statutes, (2011) for entering a plea to a felony under Chapter 893. 

LAW 

1. RespondentS admit that they are subject to the provisions of 

ChapterS 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurtsdldiofl of the 

Department 

2. In order to expedite considerabon and resolution of this action 

by the Board in a public meeting, Respondent, being fully advised of the 

consequences of so doing, hereby waives the statutory privilege of 

O 
confidentiality of Section 456.073(10), Florida Statutes, and waives a 

determination of probable cause, by the Probable Cause Panel, or the 

Department when appropriate, pursuant to Section 456.073(4), FlorIda 

Statutes, regarding the complaint, the Investigative report of the 

Department of Health, and all other information obtained pursuant to the 

Department's investigation in the above-styled action. By signing this 

waiver, Respondent understands that the record and complaint become 

public record and renialn public record and that information Is immediatelY 

accessible to the public. Section 456.073(10), Flonda Statutes. 

Respondent further to the Issuance by the Department and the 

uidusson of the attached Administrative Complaint as part of this 

settlement. 

DOB v Michael Alan 
Case No. 

0 



0 
3. Respondent admits that the allegations sn the Administtative 

Complaints, if proven true, constitute violations of law and cause the 

Respondent to be subject to disdpline by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 

1. - Respondent, MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, R.Ph., 

shall be present when this Settlement Agreement is presented to the Board 

and under oath shall answer all questions asked by the Board concerning 

this case and its . 
2. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose an administrative 

tine of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00). The tine shall be paid 

C) by Respondent to the Department ol Health, Compliance 

ManaUement Unit, Bin m, Post Office Box 6320, Tallahassee, 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Anal Order 

approving and incorporating this Settlement Agreement (Anal Order) Is 

filed with the Department Clerk. 

3. - The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the total, 

administrative costs associated with the investigation and prosecution of 

this matter amount not to exceed ONE ThOUSAND FIVE 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,500.00). costs shall be assessed when the 

DOX v. MIthael Alan Donaio. RP1i 

Cane No. 201 2-0232R 

0 



0 
Settlement Agreement IS presented to the Board. The costs shall be paid 

by Respondent to the Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C76, Post Office Box 6320, 

Florida 32314-6320, within 90 days from the date the Final Order is flied 

with the Department (jerk. 

4. and ! Respondent shall enter and 

successfully partidpate in a Professional Resource Network (PRN) contract. 

5. Respondent's license shall be indefinitely 

suspended until such time as Respondent petitions and appears before the 

Board to demonstrate his ability to practice pharmacy with reasonable sklfl 

C) and safety to patients and shalt provide a practice plan detailing his 

pharmaceUtical empkiymeflt intentionS for the Board's approval. Such 

demonstration of his ability to practice shall indude an evaluation by a 

board approved treatment provider, and Respondent shall answer any 

questions asked by the Board. Such practice plan shall ndude the location 

of Respondent's Intended practice, the type of practice, the number of 

employees (both professional and support), supervision delineations, and 

protocOl for the handling of controlled substances. Said petition may be 

flied to be heard at the same time as the settlement agreement is 

DOH v. Man Donato. RPh 

Caae No. 

0 



0 
presented, but may be filed at a later time. During the period of 

suspension, Respondent shall In no way participate in the preparation of 

medicinal drugs for dispensing or in the actual dispensing of medicinal 

drugs. 

6. Upon of hcensure, Respondent shall 

be placed on a minimum of 5 years probation. During the period of 

probation, Respondent shall be subject to the following terms and 

conditions: 

a. Respondent shall not function as a prescription 

department manager in any Florida permitted pharmacy during 

(iii) the first 2 years of probation; 

b. Respondent shall not work at or for more than 2 

pharmacies during each quarter of the probationary period, 

unless Respondent obtains prior written from the 

Board; 

c. During the period of Respondent's probation, the 

Department shall conduct semi-annual audits of 5 randomty 

selected controlled substBflCeS at the Respondent's of 

employment at Respondent'S cost; 

DOH v. Alan Donato, RPII 

Caae No. 20 

0 



0 
d. Respodent shall submit written reports to the Compliance 

Officer for the Medical Quality Assurance/Compliance 

Management Unit, Compliance Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 

Bin C-O1, 32399-3251. These reports shall Indude 

Respondent's license number, current address, and phone 

number; current name, address, and phone number of each 

pharmacy in which Respondent Is engaged in the practice of 

pharmacy; the names of aft pharmacists, pharmacy interns, 

pharmacy technidans, relief pharmacists, and prescription 

O 
department managers working with Respondent These reports 

shall be submitted to the Compliance Officer every 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

e. Respondent shall ensure that his employer submits 

written reports to the Compliance Officer for the Medical 

Quaitty AssurancelComPllaflCe Management Unit, Compliance 

Officer, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-01, 32399-3251. These 

reports shall contain the name, address, number, and 

phone numbs of each pharmacy intern, pharmacy technidan, 

relief pharmacist, and prescription department manager 

OOH v. Michael Alan Donato, RFh 

Cue No. 2012.02328 

0 



0 
working in the where Respondent 

practices, and provide a brief desalptiofl of Respondent's 

duties, responsibilities, and working schedule. These reports 

shall be subrrutted to the Compliance Officer e',ery 3 months in 

a manner as directed by the compliance officer; 

f. Respondent shall comply with any and all 

recommendations from PRN; and 

g. Respondent shall make a mandatory appearance before 

the Board of Phatmacy during his last year of probation. 

7. Future - Respondent shall not v%olate Chapter 456, 

C) 465, 499 or 093, florida Statutes; the rules promulgated pursuant thereto; 

or any other state or federal law, rule, or relating to the practice 

or to the ability to pharmacy. 

8. of - It is expressly understood that a violation 

of the of this Settlement Agreament as approved and 

incorporated into the Final Order of the Board of Pharmacy shall constitUtE 

a violation of an order of the Board for which disdplinary action may be 

initiated against Respondent pursuant to Chapter 465, florida Statutes. 

DOH v. MithacI Man Donato, RPtI 

Cc No. 

0 



9. Force or Effect until Final - It is expressly 

understood that this Settlement Agreement is subject to approval by the 

Board and has no force or until the Board incorporates the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement into Its Final Order. 

10. of - This Settlement Agreement IS 

executed by Respondent for the purpose of avoiding further administrative 

action with respect to this particular case. In this regard, Respondent 

authorizes the Board to reilew and examine all investigative file matenals 

concerning Respondent pnor to, or in conjunction with, consideration of 

the Settlement Agreement. Petitioner and Respondent agree to support 

this Settlement Agreement at the time it is presented to the Board and 

shall offer no e,idence, testimony, or argument that disputes or 

contravenes any stipulated fact or condusion of law. Furthermore, shouki 

this Settlement Agreement not be accepted by the Board, It is agreed that 

the presentation and consideration of this Settlement Agreement and other 

documents and matters by the Board shall not unfairly or Illegally prejudice 

the Board or any of its members from further partiapatton, consideration, 

or of these proceedings. 

DOll v. Michsel Alan Dociato, 

Cue No. 2012-02328 

0 



0 
SIGNED this day of , 2012. 

MICI-IAEL ALAN DONATO, R.PH. 

Case 2012-02328 

STATE OF Florida } 
} 

COUNTY OF } 

Before me personally appeared MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, R.PH., 

whose identity is known to me or 

(type of identification), and who, under oath, adnowledges that 

hissignature appears above. Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

day of 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: P 

..t. 

DOH v. Michael Alan RIii 
Case No. 2.0232g 

0 





0 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTh 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PtTI1IONER, 

CASE NO. 2012-02328 

MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, R.PHI., 

RESPONDENT. I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned o3unsel, hereby files this Administrative Complaint 

0 before the Board of Pharmacy against MICHAEL ALAN 

DONATO, R.PH., and In support thereof afleges: 

1. The Department of Heatth (Department) Is the state 

agency charged with regulating the pradice of registered pharmacy 

technidans pursuant to ChapterS 20, 456 and 465, Flonda Statutes 

(2011.). 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, 

MICHAEL ALAN DONATO, R.PI-L, held license number PS 31230, as a 

M\AC Doniw L2-02328.reV.dOC 1 



0 
licensed pharmacist in the State of Florida pursuant to Chapter 465, 

Florida Statutes. 

3. On or about january 26, 2012, In the Circuit Court of the 

Eighteenth Judidal CIrcuit in and for Brevard County, Florida, in case 

number 00 X, Mr. Donato entered a plea of 

guilty ID one count of possession of hydrocodofle, a third-deg tee 

felony, in violation of Section 893. 13(6)(a), Florida Statutes(2011). 

4. The Department notified of these pleas by a self- 

report letter from Mr. Donato'S legal counsel received February 1, 

2012. 

5. Section 456.072(1)(C), Florida StatuteS (2011), subjects a 

licensee to dlsdpllne, induding suspension or denial of a license, for 

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction 

which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a licensee'S 

profession. 

6. On or about January 26, 2012, In the Circuit Court of the 

Eighteenth )udidal Circuit in and for Brevard County, Florida, in case 

number Mr. Donato entered a plea of 

J:\PSI.ANurSiflg\BIbb, 
2012\DOflaLO, M\AC Donalo 2 



0 
guilty to one count of posseSSofl of hydrocodOfle, a third-degree 

felony, In vidation of Section 893.13(6)(a), Aorida Statutes. 

7. By entering such plea, Respondent entered a plea of 

guilty to a crime which relates to the practice of, or the ability to 

practice, a licensee's profession. 

8. Respondent violated Section 456.072(1)(C), Florida 

Statutes (201.1), by entering a plea of guilty to, regardlesS of 

adjudication, a in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice 

of, or the ability to practice, a licensee's profession. 

WHEREFORE, the respectfully requests that the 

C) Board of Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the 

following penalties: permanent revocation or suspension of 

license, restriction of practice, Imposition of an 

administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, placement. of the 

on probation, corrective action, refund of fees billed or 

collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the Board 

Dtvid 
3 



deems appropriate. 

STEVEN L HARRIS, M.D., M.Sc. 

Interim State Surgeon General 

Flonda Department of Health 

NICHOLAS W. ROMANELLO 

General Counsel 
Fonda Department of Health 

WM. FREEMAN MILLER 

Attorney Supervisor 

Assistant General Counsel 

DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, florIda 32399-3265 
(850) 245 - 4640 Telephone 

(850) 245 - 4683 FacsImile 

florida Bar No: 190330 
E-mail: 

PCP: waived 
PCP Members: n/a 

David\P aCy\Ca5c$ 
.02328.FCV.dOC 4 

SIGNED this day of 2012. 

FILED 
HEALTh 

DEPtflY CLERK 

CLERK Angel 
DAlE 7.02 

0 

0 



C 
NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 

condUcted In accordanCe with Section 120569 and 1.20.57, 

Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other 

qualified representative, to present evidence and argument, 

to call and withesses and to have subpoena 

and subpoena duces tecum Issued on his or her behalf if a 

hearing Is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that petitioner has 

incurred costs related to the Investigation and prosecution of 

this matter. Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), FlorIda 

Statutes, the Board shall assess costs related to the 

Investigation and prosecution of a disciplinary matter, which 

may Indude attorney hours and costs, on the Respondent In 

0 additIon to any other discipline imposed. 

J:\PSU\Nwsiflg\Bibb. Day 201 Don*tO 
5 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

NOTICE OF AGENCY 
CLERK J4nge(Scuvlers 

DENIAL OF UCENSE RENEWAL DATE JUL 242013 

July 22. 2013 

Michael Alan DoflatO 
1305 Tradition Circle #308 

Melbourne. FL 32901 

RE: Application for Pharmacist License No. 31230 

Dear Mr. Donato: 

This letter is notification that your application for renewa! of Pharmacist license no. 31230 is denied. 

On or about January 26. 2012 you were were convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a felony under chapter 893. Florida Statutes. A copy of the 

Judgement of conviction or plea is attached hereto, incorporated herein and made a part hereof bY 

reference as Exhibit k 

This conviction, plea, or termination with cause requires denial of renewal of a license as provided in 

section 456.0635, Florida Statutes. which provides, Each board within the jurisdiction of the 

department. or the department if there is no board, shall refuse to issue or renew a license, certificate, 

or registralion to any applicant if the candidate or applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing 

employee, or affiliated person of the applicant has been: were convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty 

or nob contendere to, regardless of a felony under chapter 893. Florida Statutes. 

This notice is agency action for purposes of section 120.569, florida Statutes. If you believe 

your substantial interests have been determined by this action, you have twenty-one (21) days from the 

date of your receipt of this notice to petition for an administrative hearing pursuant to section 120.57, 

florida Statutes, by sending a petition to the Agency Clerk, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress 

Way. BIN #A-02, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1703 or by delivering a petition to the Agency Clerk. 

Department of Health, 2585 Merchants Row Blvd., Prather Building, Suite 110, TallahaSsee, FL. Such 

petition must be filed in conformance with Florida Administrative Code Rules 28-106.201 or 28- 

106.301. as applicable. Mediation is not available. Failure to file a petition within 21 days shall 

constitute a waiver of the right to a disputed fact hearing on this agency action. Should you choose to 

waive your right to such a hearing, the Department will move for entry of a final ordeL Once a final 

order is entered you have 30 days as provided in section 120.68, Florida Statutes, to file an appeal. 

such appeal must be initiated by filing a notice of appeal with the Department of Health agency clerk 

and a copy to the district court of appeal in accordance with the provisions of Florida Rule of Appellate 

Procedure 9.110. 

DONE and ORDERED this day of July, 2013 in Tallahassee, Leon County, Florida. 

John H. Armstrong, MD 
State Surgeon General 



Cc: 

oard Of Pharmacy 

Deparfrflent or 

I copy of 

of 

,1' 



/ 
ii Rick Scott 

Mission: 
Governor 

To protect promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, D, FAGS 

S a e. U ty Co U 

HEALTI-I 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

May 7, 2013 

Mr. Michael Alan Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

Final Order filed: July 3, 2012 
Case Number: 201202328 
License Number: 31230 

Dear Mr. Donato: 

The Compliance Management Unit has received your payment of the fines and/or costs imposed in the 

Final Order for Case Number 201202328. 

Amount Paid: $3,500.00 

Date Received: May 1, 2013 

( 
Receipt Number: 912058898 

Balance: 0 

The mission of the Department of Health is to protect, promote. & improve the health of all people in 

Florida through integrated state, county, & community efforts. If you have any questions, please 

contact me by calling (850) 245-4268. 

Sincerely, 

Sondra N. Allen 
Operations Analyst II 

/sna 

Florid. D.psrtmeflt of lth 5H.sith.COm 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance Bureau of Enforcement 

TWIUER.Mea!thYFL.A 

4052 Bald CypresS Way, Bin C-76 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-325 1 

lth 
PHONE: (850) 245-4268 FAX : (850) 468.0796 

YOIJTIJBE. fldoh 



OlvI5ton of Department of Health 
Medical Quality Compliance Management Team 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 

Tallahassee, FL 323399 
(850) 245-4268 

MAIN TERMS OF THE FINAL 
e Number: 

This summary Is provided as a courtesy. It Is your 201202328 

to read and understand the Final Order tQ Respondent Name: 

ensure compliance with all terms described therein. Please Michael Alan Donato 

reference the case number listed on all correspondence Order Date: 

forwarded to this office pertaining to this cast. 713/2012 

Todays Date: 
7/3/2012 

Licensee: Michael Alan Donato ProfessIon: 2201 : Pharmacist 

Mailing 4007 Estancia Way File Nbr: 20241 

Address: Melbourne, FL 32934 LIcense Nbr: 31230 

License Status: Probation/Active 

Attorney: Allen R. Grossman Address: 2022 Raymond Diehl Road 

Grossman, Furlow, & Bayo Lic 
Tallahassee FL 32308 

Phone: 8503851314 

Attorney: Edwin Bayo Address: 2022 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 102 

Tallahassee, FL 32169 

Monitor: None on Record 

Supervisor: None on Record 

Appeal: N 

Discipline imposed: Start Date End Date Comments 

Emergency Suspension 03/12/2012 07/02/2012 

Probation 07/03/2012 RespondentS license was reinstated at the 

Board meeting and placed on probation 

pursuant to the terms of the agreement Upon 

reinstatement of licensure, Respondent shall 

be placed on a minimum of 5 years probation 

OND 

C 

C 



COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT UNIT 

FINE/COSTS INVOICE 

Michael Alan Donato 

Profession- — 2201 Pharmacist lndvlOrg # 5018360 

License 
Number: 31230 

File Number: 20241 Case Number: 201202328 : $ 2,000.00 Date: October 3, 2012 

Administrative Costs: $ 1,500.00 Due Date: October 3, 2012 

TOTAL: $ 3,500.00 

To receive credit for your payment attach cashier's check or money order here 

and return to: 
Please make checks payable to the Department of Health 

0 Department of Health 
Compliance Management Unit, BIN C-76 

P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320 

payment shall be accepted, however full payment must be made by the due date 

specified in the Final Order. Each payment must be accompanied by a copy of this 

invoice. Please make additional copies if needed. 

IMPORTANT: Payment in ful! of all fines and costs imposed by your Final Order are due upon the due date 

specified by the Final Order. Failure to pay all fines and costs on or before the due date specified will result in the 

following: 
A referral will be filed with Consumer Services for investigation regarding non-compliance with your Final 

Order and possible further disciplinary action. 

Failure to pay in full within thirty (30) days of the due date specified by the Final Order will result in the 

account being deemed dueS. Payment due accounts will avoid assignment to a collection 

agency for collection: however it will result in closing of the referral for non-compliance with your Final 

0 



Division of Department of Health 

M Q 
Compliance Record: Due Date Cmpl Date Amt imposed Amt Paid 

Costs 10/03/2012 
1500.00 0.00 

Fine 10/03/2012 
2000.00 0.00 

Respondent Report 10/03/2012 

Supervisor's Report 10/0312012 

Audit 01/03/2013 

Respondent Report 01/03/2013 

Supervisor's Report 01/03/2013 

Respondent Report 04/03/2013 

Supervisor's Report 04/03/2013 

Audit 07/03/2013 

Respondent Report 07/03/2013 

Supervisor's Report 07/03/2013 

Respondent Report 10/03/2013 

Supervisor's Report 10/03/2013 

Audit 01/03/2014 

Respondent Report 01/03/2014 

Supervisor's Report 01/03/2014 

Respondent Report 04/03/2014 

Supervisor's Report 04/03/2014 

Audit 07/03/2014 

Respondent Report 07/03/2014 

Supervisor's Report 07/03/2014 

Respondent Report 10/03/2014 

Supervisor's Report 10/03/2014 

Audit 01/03/2015 

Respondent Report 01/03/2015 

Supervisor's Report 01/03/2015 

Respondent Report 04/03/2015 

Supervisor's Report 04/03/2015 

Audit 07/03/2015 

Respondent Report 07/03/2015 

Supervisor's Report 07/03/2015 

Respondent Report 10/03/2015 

Supervisor's Report 10/03/2015 

Audit 01/03/2016 

Respondent Report 01 /03/2016 

Supervisor's Report 01/03/2016 

Respondent Report 04/03/2016 

Supervisor's Report 04/03/2016 

Audit 07/03/2016 

Respondent Report 07/03/2016 

Supervisor's Report 07/03/2016 

Respondent Report 10/03/2016 

Supervisor's Report 10/03/2016 

Audit 01/03/2017 

I 6:18:08 OND 



Division at Department of Health 
Medical Quality Compliance Management Team 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 

Tallahassee, FL 323399 
(850) 245-4268 

Respondent Report 01/03/2017 

Supervisors Report 01/03/2017 

Respondent Report 04/03/2017 

SupervisorS Report 04/03/2017 

Audit 07/03/2017 

Respondent Report 07/03/2017 

Supervisors Report 07/03/2017 

PRN Contract 

PRN Evaluation 

Appearances 

Miscellaneous 

Miscellaneous 

0 

0 
pLg_en(_rpt_cmply 16:1808 OND 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


freeCE.CCM 
PHARMACEU11CAL EDUCA11ON CONSULTANTS 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Medication Errors and Public Safety: Tragic Consequences When the System Breaks Down -FL APPROVEDILAW 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-11 -030-H03-P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Sunday, June 23, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 2 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

[ PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

L L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 612312013 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five years. 

PharmCon I 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 I (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



Of . . iii 6/25/2013 
Dear Participant: 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is pleased 

toforward your continuing education Statement .ThaflkyOUfot 
participating in this program. 

We look forward to your continued interest in phannacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity ofserving YOU again in the future. 

Sincerely, 

Judy V. Lum, MPA 

Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

..f 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

A Pharmacist's Guide to Preventing Vaccine Errors 

ACPE Universal Program No. 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/25/2013 

the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of contimi 
Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is accredited by 

pharmacy educalioa 

j rudy v. Lum, MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

E AdministTator 

show.asp?course id20 1205-01 &statement tvDe... 6/25/2013 

Page 1 of I 
Statement of Credit 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 
CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Medication Errors and Public Safety: Tragic Consequences When the System Breaks Down -FL APPROVED/LAW 

Accreditation N umber: 0798-0000-11 -030-H03-P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Sunday, June 23, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 2 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6123/2013 

Thi5 Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 
CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Medical Marijuana: Real Medication or Just Recreation? 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-1 2-099-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Wednesday, June 26, 2013 

This activity has been approved for I contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. , L I 
Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6/26/2013 1990 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharrnCon 404 Maui Street Conway. SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



I 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Endocrine Therapy for Estrogen Receptor Positive Breast Cancer 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-I 3-084-101 -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Wednesday June 26, 2013 

This activity has been approved for I contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6/2612013 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharmCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.cOm 

1990 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

What's New in Familial HypercholesterOlemia 
Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-131 73-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Tuesday, June 25, 2013 

This activity has been approved for I contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

[ PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6125/2013 

S.- 

4. 'p 

'S .q 
1990 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharniCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



Page 1 ot I 

Statement ot Lredlt 

t mu i 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

6/25/2013 
Dear 

Pharmaey Times Office of Continuing Professional Educatwfl is pleased 

to fors'ard your continuing education Statement ofCredit.ThankyoufOr 

participating in this program 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportuniry of serving you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V Lum. MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

Cøni mu ing 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 

.u%tlI EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Changing Course: A Pharmacist-Focused Approach to Improving Patient Outcomes in 

Multiple Sclerosis 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-12-087-1101-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/25/2013 

https :I/secure.pharmacytimeS.COmlCert show.ast?course id20 1210-01 &statement 6/25/2013 



Fl
or

id
a 

M
ed

ic
al

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

&
 

Fl
or

id
a 

Ph
ar

m
ac

y 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
A

ss
er

t 
th

at
 

M
IC

H
A

E
L 

D
O

N
A

T
O

 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n-

ba
se

d 
ac

tiv
ity

 t
itl

ed
 

Fl
or

id
a 

Ph
ar

m
ac

is
ts

 Im
m

un
iz

at
io

n 
C

ou
rs

e 
C

E
 B

ro
ke

r 
#2

0-
36

87
08

 a
nd

 A
C

PE
 U

A
N

 #
: 

01
65

-9
99

9-
12

-0
81

-H
O

t-
P 

on
 6

/2
3/

20
13

 a
nd

 i
s 

aw
ar

de
d 

th
re

e 
(3

) 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
cr

ed
its

. 

T
he

 F
lo

rid
a 

P
ha

rm
ac

y 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
is

 a
cc

re
di

te
d 

by
 t

he
 A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

of
 co

nt
in

ui
ng

 p
ha

rm
ac

y 
ed

uc
at

io
n.

 

0 
U

Jt
J\

A
- 

T
ia

n 
M

er
re

n 
O

w
en

s,
 M

S
, 

P
ha

rm
D

 
C

P
E

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
 

6/
23

/2
01

3 

• 
27

) 'I 
F

. 



StateilkeuL ot Lredlt 

6/6/2013 
Dear Participant: 

Pharinaey Times Office of Continuing Profeisionoi Education is pleased 

toforwordyour continuing education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 

participating in this program. 

We Icok forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity ofseri'ing you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V. Lum. MPA 

Executive Director of Education 

I ot I 

Ii&•u tiE ii n iii ng 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Update on Bowel Preparations: Improving Diagnostic Accuracy and Patient 
Adherence 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-13-125-H04P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

https://secure.pharmaCYtimes.c01Th'cert show.asp?course id20 1305-01 &statement tvDe=C... 6/6/2013 

of Ci'vi Ii flLI i ng 

1 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

CE Administrator 



,&-L 
Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is pleased 

to forward your continuing education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 

participating in this program. 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we wit! have the opportunity of serving you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V Lum. MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

%%Y 

show.asp?course id=20 1302-01 &statement type=... 5/25/2013 

Statement 01 Lreult 

5/25/2013 
Dear Participant. 

Iage 1 ot I 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

of ii; . 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfiully completed the program 

New Drugs of 2012, Part 1 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-13-1 14-H01-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 5/25/2013 

the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of co,uimiing 

pharmacy education. U. 
I Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professioasl Education is accredited by 

Pudy V. Lum, MPA 
Director of Education 

Administrator 



?age 1 01 1 

01 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

13 
Dear Participant: 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is pleased 

:oforwardyour continuing education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 
participating in this program. 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportwuty of serving you again tn the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V. Lum. MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

( )I itC t)t (. 

I .iI 4 in 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfiully completed the program 

New Drugs of 2012, Part 2 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-13-11 7-1104-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 5/31/2013 

F 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is accredited by 

the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing 
pharmacy educatioit U 

rudy V. Lum, MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

E Administrator 

https://secure.pharmacytimes.COm/Cert_ show.asp?course id20 I 303-02&statement tvve=... 5/31/2013 

I 



1 ' 1 

statement ot 

unit i 

Pha,cqffw 
6124/2013 
Dew Participant: 

Pharmacy Times Office of Contimiing Professional Education as pleased 

to forward your continuing education Statement ofCred,t.ThankyOUfOr 

participating in this program. 

We look forward royow continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity of sereing you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V. Lwn, MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

()fficc of Continuing 

. 

Lalua.atn',n 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Evolving Therapeutic Strategies in Cancer Therapy—Induced Bone Loss: The 
Pharmacist's Role in Minimizing Fractures 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-12-082-H01-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/24/2013 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is accredited by 

she Accreditation Council foe Phannacy Education as a prcrt:der of connnuing 

IudyV.Lum,MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

Administrator 

https://secure.pharmaCYtimeS.cOmtcert show.asp?course id=201 208-01 &statement type=... 6/25/2013 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Medication Considerations in Lactation: A Patient-Centered Approach 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-13-1 78-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Monday, June 24, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 1 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6124/2013 

0 

1990 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharrnCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 wwwfreece.COm 



Ut 
I I UI I 

Cnntinuing 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

6/23/2013 
Dear Participaiits 

Pharmacy Times Office of Contimiing Professionoi Education is pleased 

,ofor.vardyottr continuing educanon Statement of Credit. Thank you for 

participating in this program. 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity of ser.'ing you again in the future. 

Sincere/v. 

Judy V. Lum, MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

Of ('if tin u i ng 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Evaluation and Treatment of Patients with Major Depressive Disorder: Are We 

Considering All the Options? 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-12-083-HO 1-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/23/2013 

the Accreditation Councilfor Pharmacy Education as a provider of continu 

pharmacy edvcaiioa 

j 
Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is accrednedhy 

udyV.Lum,MPA 
Director of Education 

E Administrator 

208.02&statement_type... 6/25/2013 

CE Administrator 



I- 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Taking Control of T2DM: The Role of Incretin Mimetics in Improving Outcomes 

Accreditation N umber: 0798-00001 2-080-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Thursday, June 20, 2013 

This activity has been approved for I contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

[ PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 612012013 

f -4 . 
1990 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharmCOr) 404 Main Street Conway, Sc 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.cOm 



ut 

6/20/2013 
Dear Participant: 

1.. 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is pleased 

so forward your continuing education Statement of CrediL Thank you for 

participating in this program. 

We look forw aid to your continued interest in pharmacy educajion and 

hope we will have the opportunity of serving you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V Lum. MPA 

Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

a 1 ul I 

()1(ict of Con ii nu i ng 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the 

New Perspectives on the Pathogenesis and Treatment of Alzheimer's Disease 

ACPE Universal Program No. 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/20/2013 

204-01 6/23/2013 

I l I 
Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

pharmacy education. 
the Accreditation Councilfor Pharmacy Education as a provider of 
Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is accredited by 

® udy V. Lum, MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

E Administrator 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Methadone: An Opioid with Unplumbed Depths 
Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-1 3-148-L01-P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Wednesday, June 19, 2013 

This activity has been approved for I contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

1 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6/19/2013 

I 
.— z 

/) 
1990 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharrnCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Appropriate Use of Contraception: Who, What, When, Where, Why and How 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-1 2-098-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Tuesday, June 18, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 1 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

I PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I L Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6118/2013 

•s 

Z\ o' 
N 

1990 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharmCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 wwwfreece.COrn 



Page 1 ot 1 

ot LreUlt 

6/1812013 
Dear Parlicipont: 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education ti pleased 

toforward your continuing education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 

in this program. 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy educaflon and 

hope we will have the opportunity of serving you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V. Lum. MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

cf Ciintinuing 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT. 

https://secure.pharmacytimes.cOm/cert show.asp?course id20 1203-01 &statement tvne=... 6/1 R/20 1 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

Pharmacy 
Times 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

The Impact of Common Neuropsychiatric Conditions on Cognitive Function 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-12-0734101-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours 0.20 CEUs) on 6/18/2013 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Tuberculosis: A Disease of the Past or Continued Public Health Concern? 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-13-1 29-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Tuesday, June 18, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 1 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

[ PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

j Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 611812013 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

Ph;rmCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



/_:_ z-J/e 

STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

The Flu Affair: Unraveling Our Relationship with a Deadly Virus 

Accreditation Number: -079-101-P 
Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Wednesday, June 12, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 1.25 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6112/2013 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharmCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 wwwfreece,corn 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 
CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

Better Living Through Bacteria: Probiotics for the Gut and Beyond 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-13-1 76-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 
Date Completed: Tuesday, June 11, 2013 

This activity has been approved for I contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 6/1112013 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by IreeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharrnCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael Donato 

CPE Monitor ID: 633836 

When the Going Gets Tough: The Pharmacist's Role in Managing Treatment Resistant Depression 

Accreditation Number: 0798-0000-1 2-083-LOl -P 

Activity Type: Knowledge 

Date Completed: Monday, June 10, 2013 

This activity has been approved for 1 contact hour(s) of continuing education for Pharmacists. 

PharmCon, Inc. is accredited by the Accreditation Council for 

I . Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing pharmacy education. 

Kevin McCarthy, RPh 

Continuing Education Administrator 

Signed and issued on: 611012013 

This Statement of Credit will be retained online by freeCE for a minimum of five (5) years. 

PharmCon 404 Main Street Conway, SC 29526 (843) 488-5550 www.freece.com 



Statement ot Lredit 
Page 1 ot I 

6/10/2013 
Dear Participant 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is pleased 

to forward your continuing education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 

__________ 

participating in this program 

We look forward to vow continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity of serving you again in the flit tire. 

Sincerely. 

Judy V. Lum. MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

https://secure.phannacytirnes.comlcert show.asp?course id20 1304-01 &statement tvne... 6/10/2013 

d flIS 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

Pharmacy 
Times 

Cunitinuing 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Learning to Breathe: Optimizing Management of COPD Based on Device Selection 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-13-123-F10l-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/10/20! 3 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Professional Education is accredited by 

the Accreditation Council far Phannacy Education as a provider of continuing 

pharmacy C) 

udy V. Lum, MPA 
Director of Education 

E AdministTator 



k'age I ot 1 

01 

')fui.-&. 4)1 6/8/2013 
Dew Participant: 

Pharmacy Time, Office of Continuing Professionai Education is pleased 

taforwordyour continuing education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 

participating in this program 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity of serwng you again in the future. 

Sincerely. 

Jut/v V. Lum. MPA 
Esecu:ive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

)fl 
C ..f (tint in Ui 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Overactive Bladder Management; Challenges and Opportunities 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-12-066-H01-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 1.5 contact hours (0.15 CEUs) on 6/8/2013 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Profes.sional Education is accredited by 

the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education as a provider of continuing 

pharmacy education. c•,_ 

ludy V Lum MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

E Administrator 

id=20 1202-01 &statemeflt type=C... 6/8/2013 

I 1.Jti&at 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 



Statement ot Credit Page 1 ot I 

.. sI 

Pharmacy timer 

Michael A Donato 
4007 Estancia Way 
Melbourne, FL 32934 

616/2013 
Dear Participant: 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing .1 Education is pleased 

to forward your coniinwng education Statement of Credit. Thank you for 
participating in this program. 

We look forward to your continued interest in pharmacy education and 

hope we will have the opportunity of serving you again in the future. 

Sincere/v. 

Judy V Lum, MPA 
Executive Director of Education 

CE Administrator 

Pharmacy 
I 'r 1.1 

CONTINUING PHARMACY 
EDUCATION STATEMENT OF CREDIT 

Michael A. Donato 

has successfully completed the program 

Preemptive Action: Reducing the Risk of Breast Cancer 

ACPE Universal Program No. 0290-0000-12-078-HO 1-P 

Type of Activity: Knowledge 

and earned 2.0 contact hours (0.20 CEUs) on 6/6/2013 

Pharmacy Times Office of Continuing Profexsional Education is accredited by 
the Accreditation Council for Phannacv Education as aprovider of continuing 
pharmacy education. 

(A.. 

ludyV Lum MPA 
executive Director of Education 

E Administrator 

https://secure.pharmacytimes.com/cert show.asp?course id=20 1206-01 &statement tvt,e=C... 6/6/2013 



- Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of at peopin in nda through integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the 

January21, 2014 

Curtis Michael Drees 
19 Miami Street 
Fort Loramie, OH 45845 

RE: Pharmacist tntern Application 

Dear Mr. Drees: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are required to appear per the Board's request. Issues are heard in the order they are listed on 
the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. Our office will follow 
up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http:/Iwww.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Boaitl of Pharmacy ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLOepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 8501245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fidoh 



- - Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

_____________ 

of all people in Flotida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: lobe the Healthiest State in the Nation 

November 14, 2013 

Curtis Michael Drees 
19 Miami Street 
Fort Loramie, OH 45845 

RE: Pharmacy Intern Application 

Dear Mr. Drees: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, December 4, 2013. The meeting is being held at the Hilton Hotel 
University of Florida, 1714 SW th Street, Gainesville, FL 32607, (352) 371-3600. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are required to be present per the Board's request. Issues are heard in the order they are listed 
on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. Our office will 
follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http:/Iwww. doh .state.fl . us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sincerely, 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HeaIthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 8501245-4292 FAX 850/413.6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 

)ATE OCT 2 9 2013 
STATE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF PHA ACY 

IN RE: APPLICATION FOR PHARMACY INTERN 
LICENSE 

Curtis Michael Dress 

ORDER 
REQUIRING APPEARANCE 

This matter came before the Board of Pharmacy on October, 9, 2013 at a duly noticed public 
meeting in Panama City Beach, Florida, for review of the application for licensure as a 
pharmacist intern. By the authority of Section 6.013(3)(c), Florida Statutes, The Board of 
Pharmacy voted to require your personal attendance at one of either of the next two regularly 
scheduled board meetings or the application will be denied as a matter of law. 

WHEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED, that the applicant will appear at either one 
of the next two regularly scheduled board meetings or the application will be 
DEINED. 

WhEREFORE, it is ORDERED that the applicant shall notify the Board Office of 
which meeting the applicant will be attending 30 days prior to the scheduled date of 
said meeting. 

DONEANDORDEREDthIs dayof ,2013. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Executive Director on behalf of 
Albert Garcia, CHAIR 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by 
Certified mail to Curtis M. Dress, 19 Miami Street, Fort Loramie , Ohio 45845; and David 
D. Flynn, Assistant Attorney General, , this 2Ct day of 

,2013. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 
7012 3050 0001 8341 

- I 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


!IIEALTK 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.0. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: 850-245-4292 
www.doh.state.fl.us/pharmacy/drugs 

ITEM #2 — PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 
FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTS/GRADUTES 

Rule 64B16-26.400(1), Florida Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 

registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 
in Florida. Intern certificates issued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 
of Florida ONLY and must be returned to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 
in the State of Florida. Applicants must complete the information below and forward the application to the 

College of Pharmacy to be completed by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Please print or type legibly. 

Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Home Address (Mailing Address — ML) City 
19. 

State 
OH 

Zip 

Work Address (Practice Location — PL) City State Zip — 
Current Phone Number I 

Home Phone Number Date of Birth 
L 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 11 

1. Biographical Information 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the foHowing information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 
SEX: 1 Female 
RACE: 0 Black OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American D Other 

3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will intern in . 
4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please indicate the date. 

Yes - No Date 

Yes 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 

crime in anyjurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 

of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 



10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

11. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

12. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to 
#14.) 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subseq uent probation? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395.1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes No 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide 

Yes 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1,2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licen sure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 

it applicable. 

7-1-13 
(SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT) (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



TO BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

This is to certify that the above named applicant is entered into the professional curriculum of the University of Toledo College of , asof ;andisagraduate 
(NAME OF SCHOOL) (DATE) 

of said professional curriculum as of 5—4—14 

(DATE) 
Christine_N._Hinko,_PhD 

(PRINT NAME OF DEAN) 

SEAL) 
(SIGNATURE OF DEAN) 
7-22—13 

- (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 6 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



Florida Board of Pharmacy 
P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, FL 323 14-6320 

July 1, 2013 

To Whom it May Concern: 

I have several incidents I wish to report to the Florida Board of Pharmacy in regards to 
Item 2 on my intern application. The first incident occurred on the night of May th, 2007, 
when I was 17 years old. I was at my cousin's wedding that night, and during the 
celebration, my parents provided me with alcoholic beverages, including champagne and 
beer. They did this knowing it was legal in the state of Ohio to provide your child alcohol 
in a private setting if they are under the age of 18. As it got later into the night, several of 
my friends and I decided we wanted to go home for the night. We got a sober driver to 
bring all of us home. However, on the ride home, our vehicle was pulled over for having 
a dim license plate light. The officer said he could smell alcohol on me and my two 
friends in the back seat, and after one of my friends lied about his age, he took us in to 
their station and put us in holding cells. We were charged with underage consumption 
and waited in our cells until our parents could come pick us up. After taking the case to 
court, the prosecutor offered a settlement due to the fact that our parents had provided us 
with the alcohol in a private setting. However, he would not drop the case because, 
according to the same law, the parents must be present the entire time the child has 
alcohol in their system. I pleaded guilty to a charge of unruly juvenile and had to take an 
alcohol class, which I completed through the online class offered by the University of 
Toledo. 1 have few regrets about the incident. I know that technically I was not on the 
right side of the law when the police officer took me in, but I believe the way I 

the alcohol was legal and was the victim of bad circumstances when my car ride home 
was pulled over. I was far from intoxicated; rather, I drank socially with my parents and 
the rest of my extended family at the wedding to celebrate my cousin's marriage. Still, I 

did put myself in an unfavorable situation by consuming the alcohol at the wedding, and 
that is something I regret still to this day. 

The next incident that occurred was on July 1 2008. I was attending an event in my 
hometown called Country Concert, which is a four-day outdoor concert/festival where 
you can camp Out and see several country music stars. I had gone home to eat and shower 
before returning to my campsite that day at around 11:30 A.M. I was not drinking at the 
festival, but several of my friends at my campsite had already begun to drink that 
morning, all of them under the age of 21. I opted for a Mountain Dew. I sat in a friend's 
lawn chair, unaware that they had left their open beer in the cup holder on the lawn chair. 
A few minutes later several undercover cops that patrol the campgrounds stopped at our 
campsite and arrested anyone who had a beer in hand or near them. Despite me holding a 

Mountain Dew in hand, they gave me a charge of furnish liquor underage. I pleaded with 
them that it was not my beer, and asked several times for a breathalyzer to prove my 
innocence, but they stated the open container in the chair I was sitting in was enough to 



charge me. I spoke to a lawyer about the incident, and they told me unless whoever's beer 

that was in the chair came forward and claimed it as theirs, their was little I could do for 

myself. In addition, the person whose beer it was did not want to come forward and admit 

guilt because they themselves did not want to be charged. Therefore, I had to plead bond 

forfeiture to the charge and had to pay a fine, in retrospect, I should not have placed 

myself in a situation that could even have caused me to be arrested. I know that the 

Country Concert is notorious for having undercover officers arresting kids drinking under 

the age of 21. Although I thought I did enough by simply not drinking, I did not consider 

the effects of being surrounded by friends who were drinking underage, and I paid the 

price for that lapse in judgment. 

My final and most regrettable incident I would like to inform the Florida Board of 

Pharmacy about occurred on the night of March 2010. I had come home for spring 

break and went with several friends to what is known in our area as a softball dance. 

Basically, a local softball team that plays in several tournaments throughout the summer 

throws a dance at a local hall to raise money for their team. They usually hire a DJ or 

band and sell beer to make their money. After attending this dance, I had realized that my 

ride had left me there without letting me know they were leaving. I and the others he had 

left behind were scrambling to find a ride, and eventually did in the bed of another 

friend's pick-up truck. About halfway through our trip back home, the truck was pulled 

over for not signaling on a turn. One of the police officers came to the back of the truck 

bed and asked us to take out our ID's while she talked to the driver. I panicked, because I 

knew that, though I did not consume alcohol at the dance, I smelled strongly of it because 

people had been spilling their drinks while dancing as well as throwing them up in the 

air. In addition, I had been kissing my girlfriend, who had been drinking, and I figured 

that if I could taste the alcohol on her breath, it was probably on mine as well. Knowing 

from my previous experiences, these several circumstances were all the cops needed to 

take me in for underage consumption of alcohol. I also knew I would have to being doing 

the very thing I am now, applying for an intern license, and another alcohol charge would 

possibly keep me from obtaining one. As all of this was running through my mind, one of 

the passengers in the truck bed with me jumped Out and began running. Stupidly, I made 

the same choice. I ran into a field (I live in the country) and did not turn back. However, 

the police called for backup and they found me in the fields about ten minutes later. 

During their search of me, they found a fake ID that I had obtained about a month earlier, 

and charged me with obstruction ofjustice and prohibited acts. 

I had gotten the fake ID about a month previously for two reasons. First, all of my friends 

at college had already turned 21 and began going out to bars, and just to get into the bar 

and hang out with them I needed to be 21. Second, I had been planning to go to Florida 

for spring break and use it to get into bars and buy alcohol. However, I chickened out on 

going to Florida at the last minute because, and here is the kicker, I did not want to get 

into any trouble with alcohol before my birthday in May. 

I hired a lawyer for the case, and he informed me what I did was not obstruction of 
justice. He said that the law stated it was only obstruction if they had already had been 

holding me for suspicion of something and then 1 ran. Because it was a routine traffic 



stop and all they did was ask for ID's, it did not meet the qualifications for being 
obstruction of justice. In fact, the other passenger who ran was also charged with 
obstruction and later had his case dropped. However, because of the fake ID they found 
on me, they gave me a plea bargain where they would drop the prohibited acts if I plead 
guilty to obstruction ofjustice. I agreed and plead guilty. I received 5 years probation and 
a fine, as well as a 30-day jail sentence with all 30 days suspended as long as I do not 
commit any other crimes within the next 5 years. 

I completely regret my acts made in this situation. Instead of trying to simply explain my 
situation to the police, I panicked and tried to run, which ended up costing more than if I 
would have stayed in the truck bed. Nevertheless, I promise you it was because I knew 
my opportunity to continue my path to becoming a pharmacist would suffer if I were to 
be arrested again. I knew in my previous arrests I was the victim of bad circumstances 
and figured that would happen again if I stayed in the truck bed. 

I would be the first one to tell you that I have put myself in some bad situations over the 
years. Moreover, it seems every bad situation I have been in has put me into more and 
more trouble. I can understand that many people would just tell me to avoid these 
situations completely, get new friends, change your lifestyle, or whatever else to avoid 
these problems. I agree that these are great solutions, but growing up where I have grown 
up has made it very difficult to accomplish these things. I am from a small farming 
community where underage drinking is not only prevalent, but many of the older people 
encourage it. It is very difficult to go anywhere with your friends around my hometown 
without being confronted with underage drinking. And eventually, my friends fell into the 
culture. I could try to get new friends but in such a small town pretty much everyone is 

your friend and pretty much all of them do start drinking at a young age. My friends don't 
see it as a problem because that's the way their parents lived, and many of them plan on 
living in my hometown the rest of their lives, not going to college or ever really leaving 
at all. They do not have a problem with having any kind of misdemeanor charges on their 
record because it really will not affect their lives. In addition, I was lulled into that sense 
of calmness, despite knowing I must hold myself to a higher standard if I want to fulfill 
my dreams of becoming a pharmacist. 

I believe part of the reason I have been in such bad situations involving underage 
drinking is because I have become desensitized to it after seeing it and being around it 
since early in high school. I do not view people drinking underage as a blasphemous act, 
but rather as the norm, and therefore I sometimes see some bad situations I am in also as 
the norm. I know the reasons I have given for being in bad situations several times in my 

life are not great ones, but they are the truth. 

I am not going to lie and tell you that the only time I have ever drank in my life was at 
my cousin's wedding. I am not writing this letter to lie to you about having never drunk 
underage. I have. But it is much less than any other kid from my hometown or many of 
the kids I go to school with at the University of Toledo have. For the most part, I have 
tried to stay clean-cut my entire life, because I know what happens in your past can 
drastically affect your future. I know that all my offenses listed previously have involved 



underage drinking, and 1 hope you take that into consideration when you decide whether I 

am qualified to receive a pharmacy intern license. I have never been involved in any 

other type of criminal activity, and have no intentions to start. And now that am I am of 
legal age to consume alcohol, I can promise you I will never have any more criminal 

charges in that regard (I had several close friends killed by a drunk driver a few years 

back, and the thought of stepping behind a wheel of a car after drinking almost makes me 

sick to my stomach). Furthermore, I have received an intern license from the Ohio State 

Board of pharmacy and have had no other events I have had to report since receiving said 

license. I ask that the members of the Florida Board of Pharmacy take all this into 

account when making a decision about whether or not to grant me an intern license. I am 

a person who strives to be the best at what they do, and my approach to becoming a 

pharmacist has been and will continue to be no different. I assure you that you will not 

regret granting me a license and allowing me to continue my path to becoming a great 

pharmacist and a great person. I thank you in advance. 

Sincerely, 

Curtis Drees 
19 Miami St. 
Ft. Loramie, OH 45845 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Name and Address 

L 
Name IICURTIS MIC HAEL DREES 

Public Address OH 

Expiration Date Status 

j: 1 [ 09/15/2014 
II 

ACTIVE 

Formal Action Information 
No formal action exists. 

This data is an accurate representation of information currently maintained by the Ohio State Board of 
Pharmacy as of 812912013. 

This secure online !icense verification system conforms with The Joint Commissions current policy on 
"Primary Source Verification". 

This information is otheiwise provided as a public service and no user may claim detrimental reliance 
thereon. 

httns i/license oh in ii asn?Cnnta.ctjdnt X/29120 13 

V VY L)%I1 k L L 

OH 
r r c 

License and Registration Information 
License First Issue Date Current Issue Date 

INT.0600951 5 09/23/2010 

License Type: Pharmacy Intern 
How issued: 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

_______________ 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 21, 2014 

Kaitlyn Nemecek 
5050 Graduate Circle 
Apt 202-A 
Tampa, FL 33617 

RE: Pharmacist Intern Application 

Dear Ms. Nemecek: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sincerely 

/ Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health ldasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy ITTER:FtealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 lth 
PHONE: 850/245.4292• FAX 850/413.6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 13) 

N 
/ 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
1 

P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

YIiil U Phone: 850-245-4292 

ITEM #2— PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 
FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTS/GRADUTES 

Rule 64B16-26.400(1), Florida Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 
registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 
in Florida. Intern certificates issued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 
of Florida ONLYand must be returned to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 
in the State of Flbrida. Applicants must complete the information below and forward the application to the 
College of Pharmacy to be completed by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Please print or legibly. 
1. Bioqraphical Information 
Last Name First Name 

Home Address (Mailing Address — ML) City 

Middle Name 

State Zip 

Work Address (Practice Location — PL) City 
?36 /7 

State Zip 

Current Phone Number Home Phone Number Date of Birth 
N/14 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way your candidacy for licensure. 
SEX: 0 Male Female 
RACE: 0 Black DHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 
3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will intern in . 

NIfA 
4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please indicate the . 
Yes No Date 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 
crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes____ No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 
of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is NOT a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 2 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 5 ot 13) 

10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 

in this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

11. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes 

12. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to 

#14.) 

Yes 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 

the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes_______ No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No______ 

13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes_______ No_______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes No 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 6 o6 13) 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 

409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer .) 
Yes No")< 
I 5a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide ) 
Yes No)( 
18. If "yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 

in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 

recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 

official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_______ No?( 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 

you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 

if applicable. 

- - q 
(SIGNATURE OF (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 7 of 13) 

BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

This is to certify that the above named applicant is entered into the professional curriculum of the 

USF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 
(NAME OF SCHOOL) 

as of AUGUST 26, 2013 
(DATE) 

and is a graduate 

of said professional curriculum as of May, 2017 
(DATE) 

(SCHOOL SEAL) 

SH-MQA 104, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

KEVIN B. SNEED, PharmD 
PRINT NAME 

OF DEAN) 

Page 6 of 11 

August 30, 2013 
(DATE) 



Page 1 of 1 

Norton, Ma'Lasha 

From: zzzz Feedback, MQA_Pharmacy_Appstatus 

Sent: Thursday, December 26, 2013 7:57 AM 

To: Norton, Ma'Lasha 

Subject: FW: Kaitlyn Nemecek 

Please respond and copy the ZZZZ. 

Thank you! 

From: kaitlynem@gmail.com mailto:kaitlynem©gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 4:49 PM 

To: zzzz Feedback, MQA_Pharmacy_Appstatus 
Subject: Fw: Kaitlyn Nemecek 

From: kaitlynem@gmail.com 
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 4:27 PM 

To: ma'la.cha norton@doh.state.fl.us 

To whom it may Concern, 

In the fall of 2010 I was diagnosed with depression and generalized anxiety disorder. This disorder is 

apparent as acute gastroenteritis that occurs during periods of stress. I was referred to the USF 

counseling center for further treatment. On a steady, low dose of fluoxetine, these acute episodes do 

not occur and the depression is mitigated. The disorder is very well controlled and should not interfere 

with any actions associated with professional training. If you have any further questions or need 

additional information, please contact me. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Kaitlyn Nemecek 
Pharmacy Candidate 2017 
(904)228-0621 
kaitlynem gmail.com 

12/26/2013 



(Page 9 of 13) 

iii:: 
• .• 

r 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS state,county&communityefforts. 

H State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nafion 

January21, 2014 

Rafa Khundkar 
14654 Sw 140 CT 
Miami, FL 33186 

RE: Pharmacist Intern Application 

Dear Ms. Khundkar: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqalpharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sin 

ay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health ldasHeaith.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE; 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Please print or type legibly. 
1. Biographical Information 
Last Name 

Home Address (Mailina Address — ML) 4 X 
City 

FL 
State Zip 

Work Address (Practice Location — PL) 

Home Phone Number Date of Birth 
Current Phone Number 

I 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: 0 Male 
RACE: 0 Caucasian 0 Black OHispanic 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will intern in Florida. 

4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please indicate the . 
No_______ Date 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes No 

(You must indude all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court. so that you would not have a record 

of convidion. Driving under the influence or driving white impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this ) 
OCT 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 2 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

(page 1 10) 

1 oI 
FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 Tallahassee, FL 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 

College of 101 

ITEM #2- PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 

FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTSIGRADUTES 

Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 

of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 

by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 

to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 

— ts must complete the information below and forward the application to the 

completed by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Middle Name First Name 

City State Zip 

Yes_______ 



(Page 4 of 10) 

10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 

in this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

11. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

12. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (if you responded "no", skip to 

#14.) 

Yes_______ No_______ 

I 3a. It yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 

the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes_______ No 1 - 

13b. If yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No______ 

13c. If yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes______ No V 

13d. If yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

documentation). 

Yes_- No_______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes______ No 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, . 



(Page 5 of 10> 

14a. If yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes______ No 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 

409.913, Florida Statutes? (tf no, do not answer I 5a.) 

Yes 

I 5a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer IBa and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's Ust of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If yes", please provide ) 
Yes______ No______ 

18. If yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 

in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 

recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 

official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_______ No_____ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. It 

you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 

if applicable. 

7 (SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT) (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 6 of 10) 

BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

This is to certify that the above named applicant is entered into the professional cumculum of the 

University of Florida ,asof August 21, 2013 ;andisagraduate 

(NAME OF SCHOOL) (DATE) 
May 2017 

of said professional cumculum as of_____________________ 
(DATE) 

Michael W. McKenzie, PhD, RPh 
(PRINT NAME 0 EAN) 

(SCHOOL SEAL) (SIGN&URE OF 

6 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 6 of 11 

Rule 64B16-262032, FAC 



12/29/2913 12:25 93 PAGE 01/52 

Attention: Melissa: December Øfli, 
2013 

Attached, you will find my r used addendum to question 7 on page 3 of 11 of the Florida Board 

of Pharmacy Intern : n and a letter from my physiciaa 

Thank 

Rafa Khundkar 2: Q 

Applicant ifi: 20080 

Email: rkhundkar@ufl.edu 

Phone: (786) 201-7649 



(Page 8 of 10) 

Addendum to Page 3 of 11, Question 7: 

Rafa Khundkar 

On March 2013, I was admitted to Mercy Hospital Behavioral Health Unit in 

Miami, Florida. I was treated under the care of Dr. Fernando Salvato and was released from the 

hospital on March 25, 2013. 

Since then, I have been following up with Dr. Salvato in his office on a monthly basis 

and now am ready and capable of returning to school to start the professional pharmacy program. 

A letter from my doctor addressed to the Florida Board of Pharmacy confirming my full 

recovery, readiness to start professional pharmacy program and obtain pharmacy intern license is 

enclosed. 

For any further questions or concerns, please contact me or Dr. Fernando Salvato, M.D., 

PA. at 132 NW th Street, Suite 401C, Miami, FL 33125, Phone: 305-324-6440, Fax: 305-324- 

8050. 



12/25/2513 12:25 73B5739298 PAGE 52/52 

Addendum to Page 3 of Ii, Question 7: 
Rafa Khundkar 

On March 2ff, 2013 1 was admitted to Mercy Hospital Behavioral Health Unit in 
Miami, Florida. I was treate I under the care of Dr. Fernando Salvato and was released from the 
hospital on March 25. 2013. 

I had a period of stee deprivation which cumulated in a panic attack that needed medical 
attention. I had an adverse re to the benzodiazepines that were subsequently prescribed and 
only became more agitated v ith added benzodiazepines. My condition did not improve with 
other medications but I math t haste recovery soon after all medications, including all 
benzodiazepines. were halter Since then, I have been following up with Dr. Salvato in his , There was no mental. ness diagnosis made. Since this experience. I have completed fly 
first semester of pharmacy s :ool at University of Florida consisting of 17 credits with a 4.0 
GPA. 

A letter from my dot r addressed to the Florida Board of Pharmacy confirming my ftill 
recovery, readiness to start a ]rofessional pharmacy program and obtain a pharmacy intern 
license is enclosed. 

For any ftirther questi :ns or concerns, please contact me or Dr. Fernando ivato, M.D., 
P.A at 132 NW th Street. ,.ite 401C. Miami. FL 33125. Phone: 305-324-6440. Fax.: 305-324- 
3050. 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people in Flonda through integrated John H Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

HEALTH State surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naton 

January 21, 2014 

Saige Elizabeth Kaufman 
2045 Lee Road 137, Lot #100 
Auburn, AL 36832 

RE: Pharmacist Intern Application 

Dear Ms. Kaufaman: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www. doh.state.fl . us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Fiorida Department of Health www.FiorldasHeaith.com 
Board of Pharmacy ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 'Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292• FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 13) 

ZZoZ 

( ) FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

I 
Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

www.doh.state.fi us/pharmacy/drugs 

ITEM #2— PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 
FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTS/GRADUTES 

Rule 64B16-26.400(1), Florida Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 
registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 
in Florida. Intern certificates issued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 
of Florida ONLY and must be returned to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 
in the State of Florida. Applicants must complete the information below and forward the application to the 
College of Pharmacy to be completed by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Please Dnnt or tvoe leaiblv. 
1. Biographical Information 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Home Address (Mailing Address — ML) U City State Zip 

Work Address (Practice Location — PL) City State Zip 

Current Phone Number Home Phone Number Date of Birth 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 
SEX: 0 Male WFemale 
RACE: 0 Black OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 
3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will intern in Florida. 

4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please indicate the . 
Yes No Date 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 
crime in any Jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 
of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is NQI a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 2 of 11 

Rule 64616-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page .5 of 13) 

10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
in this state or any other state? 

No 

II. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

12. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to 
#14.) 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No______ 

13c. if 'yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 
It been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted In the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes_______ No_______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid Issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes No 

DH-MQA 104, 09109 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26,2032, F.A.C. 



(Page.6 of 13> 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 
15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been In good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 16a and b.)A 
Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entitles? (If "yes", please provide ) 
Yes No 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program In the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion, If 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 
if applicable. 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 7 of 13) 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

b 
to certify the above named applicant is entered into the professional curriculum of the 

as of —17 0 
; and is a graduate 

(NAME OF SCHOOL) (DATE) 

of said professional curriculum as of A/% ôf4 
(DATE) i a— 

K. Lee— 

(SIGNATURE OF DEAN) 

(DATE) 

- 
— - 

d 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 6 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 10 of 13) 

November 11, 2013 

Dear Florida Board of Pharmacy, 

My name is Saige Kaufman and I am writing you regarding my disciplinary action on my 

current intern license in Alabama. I am a fourth year pharmacy student at the Harrison School 

of Pharmacy in Auburn, Alabama. 

In May of 2011, at the end of my first year of pharmacy school, I was anonymously 

reported to the Alabama Board of Pharmacy for smoking marijuana. I was further evaluated 

and it was determined that I had a minor dependency to marijuana. As a result, I have been 

part of the State of Alabama's Weilness Program, formerly known as the Committee On 

Rehabilitating Impaired Pharmacists. Through this program I gained knowledge about my 

personal strengths including determination, honesty, and responsibility. I have learned 

methods of relieving anxiety and stress such as exercising, reading, and jewelry design. I also 

learned to seek help from others when needed. As a member, I successfully completed a 5- 

week intensive outpatient rehabilitation program. Currently, I participate in weekly meetings 

and visit with a private counselor twice a month. Attending meetings allows me to share my 

personal feelings and welcome support offered by other members. Visits with my counselor 
allow me to be accountable, reach short and long-term goals for a healthy lifestyle, and discuss 

life issues in depth in hopes of seeking a resolution. 

As a background, I started using marijuana while an undergrad student at the University 

of Central Florida. Intellectually, I knew it was not the right thing to do and needed to stop. 
However, due to increased stress and low self-esteem I continued to use marijuana. When I 

started pharmacy school, (found myself smoking out of habit. I immediately stopped once I was 

reported to the State Board of Pharmacy of Alabama. At this time, I knew I needed to make 

changes in my life. I became motivated to achieve my goal in becoming a pharmacist. I began to 
attend church, surround myself with a different crowd, become more involved in school 
activities, and take on new hobbies. Over the last few years I have learned a lot about myself 
and addiction. Being ordered to stop using marijuana and take monthly drugs tests has been 

the biggest blessing in my life. Being drug free has allowed me to interact socially with peers, 

live an active lifestyle, and focus more on my academic career. 

While in the program, I have come to understand addiction and have been able to put 
that phase of my life behind me. The first step in my recovery was to take a good look at myself 
and learn why I was using marijuana. I was always a good student and enjoyed being in school; 

especially loved science, but never was heavily involved in extracurricular activities. I soon 

realized that I was surrounding myself with people that were a bad influence. I eliminated these 

people from my life and urged them to seek help as well. Being clear minded and having 



(Page 11 of 13) 

studied and worked the 12 steps in treatment, I was ready to be more involved in my schooling 

and my future career. I work with counselors on a weekly basis, in group and private settings, 
and this allows me to have constant support and give constant support to my peers. I am 

involved in service to the community with the pharmacy school as well as within my fraternity. I 

have matured tremendously and I truly believe my experience allows me to make a difference 
in people's lives. Working in the health care field has really helped me to connect with patients 
and counsel on a daily basis about living a healthy lifestyle and encourage them through making 

small goals in life; it is a very rewarding practice. 

I truly am thankful for the Weilness Program the State of Alabama provided to me. I will 
be eternally grateful that the State realized my potential and allowed me to continue to pursue 

my dream of completing pharmacy school. It is my intention to always be a respected 

pharmacist in the community and provide high-quality patient care. I will continue to work on 

my rehabilitation in all areas of my life. I am happier than I have ever been and willing to help 

others needing guidance so they can live happy and healthy lives. 

I am looking forward to my future practice in Florida so that I may be close to my family 
and the friends who have been a positive influence in my life. It is my hope that you will grant 
me this opportunity. 

Please feel free to contact me at (239)280-8888 or by e-mail at sek0017@auburn.edu 
with any further questions or requests. 

Sincerely, 

Saige Kaufman 
Pharm.D. Candidate 2014 



Page 1 oil 

ALBOpharm - License Verification Search Details 

Alabama 

Welcome to the Alabama State Board of Pharmacy Board of 
Pharmacy 
iii Village St 

Hoover, AL 

35242 
Voice: 
205.981.2280 
Fax: 
205.981.2330 
OFFICE 
HOURS: 
8:00AM - 

4:00PM CST 

Mailing: Licensee Verification 
P.O. Box 
381988 
Birmingham, 
AL 35238- 

Print Copy 1988 

SAIGE ELIZABETH KAUFMAN 

Name 

Intern! Extern License 

Filing Type 

On Probation 
Status 

Si 0060 
File/License Number 

08/23/2010 
Original Date 

Discipline on File 

Issue Date 
License/Permit Effective 

Name 

_________________________________________________________________ 

08/23/2010 
Initial 

______________________________________________________ 

Back to Search J 

https ://albopharm.glsuite.us/glsuitewebUAT/Clients/ALBOPharm!Public/LicenseVerifica... 12/17/2013 



Michael C Garver, DM0 
19260 North Mobile Street 
P0 Box 426 
Citronelle, AL 36522 

12.19.2013 
Re: Saige Kaufman 

fax: 251.252.9112 
phone: 251.866-5585 

cell phone: 251.605.2883 
email: 

Ms. Kaufman has authorized me to tell you that she is under order and contract 
with the State of Alabama Board of Pharmacy and the Wellness Committee. She 
has been under contract since February 12, 2012, the date of her order. She has 
been in compliance with all strictures of her order and contract. All Screens are 
clean, meeting attendance reported on time, and therapy sessions attended. 

Saige has struggled financially to maintain this record of recovery and we are 
pleased to recommend for licensure in any state. 

Please find attached a copy of her order. If I can be of any further service, please 
let me know 

Michael C Garver DMD 
File: SK 



Mailing : 
P.O. Box 381988 

Birmingham, AL 35238-1 988 : 
111 Village Street 
Hoover, AL 35242 

(205) 981-2280 
(205) 981-2330 Fax 
www.albop.com 

ALABAMA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY MEMBERS 2013 

KENNY SANDERS, R.Ph 
President 

MARK CONRADI, R.Ph. 
Vice-President 

DAN McCONAGHY R.Ph. 
Treasurer 

TIMOTHY A. MARTIN, PharmD. 

BUDDY R. BUNCH, R.Ph 

FLORIDA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Bin C-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3252 

RE: SAIGE ELIZABETH KAUFMAN 

Alabama Extern/Intern #10060 

This is to certify that the undersigned is the duly elected executive officer of 

the Alabama State Board of Pharmacy. I am in charge of the Board office and 

all records are made and kept under my direct supervision. 

This is to further, certify that the enclosed records are exact copies of those 
app earing on file regarding SAIGE ELIZABETH KAUFMAN. 

M . exter /intern license is currently on probation 

z G. Ellenburg 
Secretary 

Subscribed and sworn before 
Alabama, County of Shelby. 

My commission expires: 
October 22. 2014 

at Birmingham, 



IN THE MATTER OF: ) 

) BEFORE THE ALABAMA STATE 
SAIGE ELIZABETH KAUFMAN ) 

) BOARD OF PHARMACY 
EXTERN/INTERN PERMIT NO: 10060 ) 

CONSENT ORDER 

THIS CAUSE came before the Alabama State Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Board") in connection with the referral of Saige Elizabeth Kaufman 

(Kaufman) to UAB Center for Psychiatric Medicine due to her unlawful use and possession 

of Marijuana and a resulting diagnosis of Cannabis dependence. 

Prior to a hearing to determine whether Kaufman's Externhlntern Permit should be 

sanctioned, the Board through counsel and Kaufman, pursuant to Code of Alabama (1975), 

§ 41-22-12(f), resolved informally the matters at issue and agree to the entry of this 

Consent Order, which shall include the following terms: 

1. Kaufman acknowledges and agrees that her use of Marijuana violates and 

she is found to have violated Code of Alabama (1975), § 34-23-33(5). 

2. Kaufman's Externhlntern permit shall be suspended during the time 

she validly holds the same, with the suspension reverting to probation subject to her 

compliance with the following conditions: 

(a) The execution of a Monitoring Agreement with the Alabama Board of 

Pharmacy Weliness Program (Program). Kaufman shall also comply 

with the recommendations of the Director of the Program and/or the 

Board. 

(b) In the event Kaufman applies for licensure as a pharmacist and is 

Page 1 of 3 



otherwise qualified for licensure, the license shall be issued but 

suspended for a time to be determined by the Board, the suspension 

immediately reverting to probation subject to her compliance with any 

and all terms deemed necessary and appropriate by the Board. 

Kaufman acknowledges and agrees the duration of the above 

referenced suspension and probation shall be in the sole discretion of 

the Board. 

3. Kaufman expressly waives her rights pursuant to the Alabama Pharmacy 

Practice Act, the Alabama Administrative Procedures Act, including but not limited to Code 

of Alabama (1975), § 34-23-34 and § 34-23-92(1 2) and Code of Alabama (1975), § 41-22- 

12 and § and Code of Alabama (1975), § 20-2-50 and including but not 

limited to a Statement of Charges and Notice of Hearing and the opportunity for a hearing 

before the Board in connection with any charges against her, the right to counsel and 

judicial review. Kaufman further waives any objection to the attorney for the Board 

preparing, drafting or making this Order, including the waiver of any objection or right 

pursuant to Code of Alabama (1975), § 41-22-1 8. 

4. By execution of this Consent Order, Kaufman hereby releases the Board, the 

Program and their members, agents, representatives, servants and employees from any 

and all liability, claims, damages, fees or expenses arising out of or made in connection 

with the matters relating to this Consent Order. 

5. Kaufman acknowledges and agrees that any future violation of the Alabama 

Pharmacy Practice Act, the laws that regulate the sale and/or dispensing of prescription or 

legend drugs and/or narcotics or any Rules and regulations of the Alabama State Board 

Page 2 of 3 



of Pharmacy or the pharmacy law or rules of the Board of Pharmacy of another state or any 

other applicable laws may, upon proof and hearing thereof, result in further disciplinary 

sanctions against her license or permit, including, but not limited to revocation. 

6. Kaufman acknowledges and agrees that she has read this Consent Order and 

that she fully understands the terms, conditions and contents of the same. Kaufman 

acknowledges and agrees that she voluntarily and of her own free will accepts the terms 

and conditions set out in this Consent Order and had the opportunity to seek legal counsel 

prior to the execution of this Consent Order. 

DONE this the 

___________day 

of ,2012. 

Sa 

DONE this the 2 day of r 1 ,2012. 

OF PHARMACY 

By:______________ 
Donnie R Ih , Ph, esident 

James . ard, 
Attorney or the Alabama 
Board of Pharmacy 

OF : 
WARD & WILSON, L.L.C. 
2100 Southbridge Parkway, Suite 580 
Birmingham, Alabama 35209 
(205) 871-5404 

Page 3 of 3 



(Page 8 of 13) 

a 
AUBURN UNIVERSITY 

HARRISON SCHOOL 
OF PHARMACY 

November 11, 2013 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 
P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, FL 323 14-6320 

Dear Florida State Board of Pharmacy: 

I would like to provide a recommendation for Saige Kaufman, a Pharm. D. candidate 
2014 at Auburn University. Saige has been a student in my classes and I also serve as her 
faculty advisor/mentor in our program. 

I have known Saige since she first started pharmacy school in August of 2010. Over 
this time, I have watched her grow and mature into a professional young lady. She was a 
member of one of our Pharmacy Practice Experience (PPE) groups that meets every week 
to discuss health and therapeutics for patients in the community. The group members, both 
students and faculty, meet with patients on a regular basis to assist, monitor, and inform 
them on medication and health issues. Saige was an effective leader and contributor in the 
group activities. In addition, I have been Saige's faculty mentor throughout pharmacy 
school and meet with her on a regular basis. At mentor meetings, the student and mentor 
discuss school and personal life activities and issues. With this said, I am well-informed 
about her current disciplinary status imposed on her intern license. 

From my and other faculty's perspective, Saige is an exemplary student that portrays 
dedication, caring, courage, and determination. Saige continues to be enthusiastic about 
school and her future career despite a previous setback. Based on our interactions in 
courses and mentoring, I am confident of her abilities to provide quality patient care. As a 
third year student, Saige had many responsibilities including being the leader of our 
weekly meetings and coordinating, care with patients, She a great attitude and 
shows sincere concern and admiration for her PPE patients on a consistent basis. From 
discussions with her and other faculty, Saige appears to be performing exceptionally well 
in her clerkship rotations. 

Saige has openly spoken to me about her stresses at school and that she is constantly 
working to better herself through professional involvement and devotion to her academic 
program. I have no doubt that she will be admired and treasured by her future patients and 
colleagues as she builds her future pharmacy practice. I believe that Saige participates in 
monthly drug screens and works with a counselor on a monthly basis. She has expressed 
happiness to have made it to her final year of school and hopes to be working in a retail 
setting upon graduation. 

4306 Walker Building, Auburn, AL 36849-5309; Telephone: 334-844-4037; Fax: 334-844-8331 
Www.auburnedu 

I 
www.pharmacy auburn edu 



(Page -9 of 13) 

If you have questions, please feel free to contact me at my office (334-844-8337) or by 
cell phone (334-703-8045). 

Sincerely, 

William R. Ravis, RPh, PhD, FCP 
Professor of Pharmaceutics 
Pharmacal Sciences 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Suipeon General & Secretary 

Dmitriy Matev 
2529 Cortez Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32246 

RE: Pharmacist Intern Application 

Dear Mr. Matev: 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 23, 2014 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FlorldasHeaith.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA lth 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

Sir 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page .1 of 21) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone: (850) 245-4292 
www.doh .state.fl us/pharmacy/drugs 

ITEM #2- PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 

FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTS/GRADUTES 

Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 

of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 

ued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 

to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 

ts must complete the information below and forward the application to the 

.pleted by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Middle Name 
Last Name 

State Zip 
Home Address (Mailing Address — ML) City 

Work Address Location — PL) 

"ec+ 

I 

City State Zip, 
I 

Home Phone Number 

— 

Date of B irth 
Current Phone Number 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: 0 Female 
RACE: 0 Black OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will intern in Florida. 

4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please indicate the . 
No I Date 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic ? 
Yes No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even f adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you wocild not have a record 

of conviction Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

RECEIVED 
OCT 14 2013 

Licensing and 
Auditing Services 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 2 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

EALT& 

Please print or type . 
1. Bioaraphical Information 

First Name 

Yes 



(Page 5 of 21) 

10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 

in this state or any other state? 

Yes No .1 

11. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

12. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to 

#14.) 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 

the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No_______ 

13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes_______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes________ No________ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. 55. 

1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes No i 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page of 21) 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 

409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 

(If no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No I 
16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 

for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

1Gb. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide ) 
Yes No 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 

in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 

recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (if "yes", please 

official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes_________ No_______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If 

you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit aj 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 

if applicable. 

(SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT) (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 7 of 21) 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

of said professional curriculum as of 

(SCHOOL SEAL) 

May 2017 

(DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09109 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

Page 6 of 11 

This is to certify that the above named applicant is entered into the professional curriculum of the 

University of Florida asof August 21, 2013 and isagraduate 

(NAME OF SCHOOL) (DATE) 

Michael W. McKenzie, PhD, RPh 

(SIGNA URE F DEAN) 

/ (DATE) 



(Page 9 of 21) 

2529 Cortez Road 
Jacksonville, FL 32246 
-3054062 
dimarnatev@gmalLcorn 

To whom it may concern: 

I was arrested for underage drinking on March 2011 in Avery County in North 
Carolina I was 20 at the time and decided at a ski resort I pled guilty and had to pay a 
$183 line On the December in 2011 I was arrested for DUI in Duval County, 
Jaclsonville FL I was charged with a misdemeanor pled guilty and spent the next 6 months 
carrying out my probation When I turned 21 I started to go out and drink with friends and 
behave irresponsibly by deciding 10 drive home afterwards I felt like I could handle myself on 
the road regardless of my inebriation Eventually my recklessness caught up to me on that day 
when I was driving home and crashed my car Into a pole because I was taking a turn too last I 

have stopped drinking alcohol irresponsibly, and I have camed out all the terms of my probation 
including 50 hours of community senilce 10 immobilization OUt School attending a 
MADD event, a 12-week alcohol therapy class and paying $1081 in tines 

I have learned many things from the year 2011, I have learned that I am responsible 
for my actions, 1 have learned the real dangers of alcohol, and I have learned that I have the will 
to do I can to amend this terrible mistake I made During this time I completed my DS 
in Chemistry at the University of North Flonaa Refocusing my goats and gaining a new 
understanding of responsibility have helped me change for the better and learn from my 
mistakes 

Dmitriy Matev 
6/9/13 

Enclosed Court Documents 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Flonda through integrated 

state, county & community efforts. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State General & Secretary 

Jonathan James Samuelson 
4413 Avalon Suites Terrace 
Tampa, FL 33613 

RE: Pharmacist Intern Application 

Dear Mr. Sam uelson: 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 23, 2014 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin -04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PNONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413.6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
I1TER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 

Sir 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 16) 

ZZo f 
FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 ' Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 I rmacy/d rugs 

ITEM #2- PHARMACY INTERN APPLICATION 
FOR U.S. PHARMACY STUDENTS/GRADUTES 

Rule 64B16-26.400(1), Florida Administrative Code, states, A pharmacy intern is required to be 
registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as in intern in a pharmacy 
in Florida. Intern certificates issued by the Florida Board of Pharmacy (the board) are valid for the State 
of Florida ONLY and must be returned to the board after an intern has become a Registered Pharmacist 
in the State of Florida. Applicants must complete the information below and forward the application to the 
College of Pharmacy to be completed by the Dean and returned to the address above. 

Please Drint or tvoe lealbtv. 
1. BIographical Information 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Home Address (MailIng Address — ML) City State Zip i, 
Work Address (PractIce Location — PL) ' City State Zip 

Current Phone Number Home Phone Number Date of Blith ,1' 
2. Equal OpportunIty Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 
SEX: aMale 0 Female 
RACE: 0 Black OHispanic. 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 
3. If known, indicate the name and address of the pharmacy where you will Intern in Florida. 

4. Have you ever applied to take the Florida pharmacist examination? If yes, please Indicate the . 
Yes No Date 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contenclere, or no contest, to a 
crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes No 

(You must Include aft misdemeanors and felonies, even If adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 
of conviction. Driving under the Influence or driving while impaired Is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 2 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 5 of 16) 

10. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 
In this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

11. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
Jurisdiction when disciplinary pending? 

Yes No 7 
12. Are you presently being investigated or Is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 
817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 
control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or Jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to 
#14.) 

Yes No / 
13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 
the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has It been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No______ 

13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), FlorIda Statutes, has 
It been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. if "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes_______ No_______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395.1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? (If no do not answer 14a.) 

Yes No 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 4 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 6 of 16> 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 
and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes No 
15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No ' 
15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures estabiished by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer ISa and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector Generars List of Excludedjpdlviduals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide ) 
Yes No 

18. if "yes" to any of the questions 13 through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking Ilcensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes________ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answeród or your application will be returned for completion. if 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 5-18, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 
certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all 
If appilcabie. 

ii 
( IGNATUREOFAPPLICANT) (DATE) 

DH-MQA 104, 09/09 Page 5 of 11 

Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 



(Page 7 øf 16) 

BE COMPLETED BY DEAN OF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 

This is to certify that the above named applicant is entered into the professional curriculum of the 

USF COLLEGE OF PHARMACY 
(NAME OF SCHOOL) 

as of AUGUST 26, 2013 
(DATE) 

and is a graduate 

of said professional curriculum as of May, 2017 
(DATE) 

(SCHOOL SEAL) 

SH-MQA 104, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 

KEVIN B. SNEED, PharmD 
P 

(SIGNATURE OF DEAN) 

Page 6 of 11 

August 30, 2013 
(DATE) 



Roberson, Akhiem 

From: Jonathan S jsamuels@fastmail.fm] 
Sent: Sunday, October 27, 2013 12:39 PM 
To: Roberson, Akhiem 
Subject: Re: Jonathan Samuelson Pharmacy Intern 19539 

I'm terribly sorry -- due to my courseload I didn't read your email in time. I've sent it 
in anyway, and I hope it's not too late. Again, I sincerely apologize for the oversight. 

Jonathan J. Samuelson 
USE College of Pharmacy 
Doctor of Pharmacy Candidate 2017 
jsamuels@fastmail.fm 

On Sun, Oct 27, 2013, at 02:09 AM, Jonathan S wrote: 
> In Fall of 2009 I enrolled in the University of Florida's chemistry 
> program. Soon after, I turned 21 & like many students I began drinking. 
> Although I did not drink heavily at first it became both more frequent 
> and more serious. Although in retrospect my drinking was clearly 
> abnormal its progression was incremental, and slow enough that I 

> didn't realize what was happening; by the end of my senior year I was 

> drinking heavily and near-constantly. Upon realizing that I had 
> alienated my friends and family and could not stop drinking I 

> purchased Etizolam from an online vendor with the intention of 
> combining it with alcohol to commit suicide. This substance was — and 
> to my knowledge still is — unregulated in the United States; I 

> committed no crimes to obtain it & ordered it legally and openly. When 
> the suicide attempt failed I returned to drinking. A nurse at the 
> local hospital convinced me to seek help, and a counselor on campus 
> arranged for my parents to take me to Windrnoor Healthcare -- a detox 

> facility — on the 25th of May, 2012. I was diagnosed with depression 
> and polysubstance abuse due to my use of both alcohol and Etizolam, 
> and released five days later on the 30th. I receive regular 
psychiatric followups and my sponsor (Tom Tucker, 

> 727-692-3997) and I attend meetings nearly every day (and more 
> often, when I can afford the time) . The only substances I currently 
> take are prescription antidepressants; I have not had a drink or a 
> drug of abuse since May 25th of last year, nor have I any desire to 
> throw away the second chance I have been given. 
> 

> -- 
> 

> Jonathan J. Samuelson 
> USF College or Pharmacy 
> Doctor of Pharmacy Candidate 2017 

jsamuels@fastmail.fm 
> 

> On Thu, Oct 24, 2013, at 08:35 AM, Akhiem.Roberson@flhealth.gov wrote: 
> > 

> > Good Morning and thank you for contacting the Board of Pharmacy. We 
> > have reviewed your documents and have deemed your application to be 
> > reviewed at the next board meeting. We will be sending your file to 
> > the December meeting however, in order for us to do that, we must 
> > have a complete file as we are missing a personal statement from 
> > you. Please email me back with your personal statement. Just include 
> > the events and circumstances surrounding the issues at that time. 
> > The deadline to make it on the December meeting's agenda is tomorrow 

> by the close of business. Once I receive your personal statement, I 

> > will forward it to the organizer so he may include you on the 
> > agenda. If you have any other questions or concerns please feel free 

1 



> > to contact us back. Thank you and have a great day! 
> > 

> > Akhiem Roberson 
> > Regulatory Specialist I 

> > Florida Board of Pharmacy 
> > Phone: 850—245-4444 
>> 
> > Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in 
> > Florida through integrated state, county & community efforts. 
> > 

> > Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation 
> > 

> > Values: 
> > I nnovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources 
> > wisely. 
> > C ollaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve 
> > problems. 
> > A ccountability: We perform with integrity & respect. 
> > R esponsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & 
> > engaging our partners. 
> > E xcellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & 
> > continuous performance improvement. 
> > 

> > Special Notice: There have been changes to the license renewal process. 
> > Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to learn more 
>> 
> > Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most 
> > written communications to or from state officials regarding state 
> > business are public records available to the public and media upon 
> > request. Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
>> 
>> 
> > 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>> 
> > Original Message 
> > From: Jonathan S mailto:jsamuels@fastmail.fm] 
> > Sent: Friday, October 18, 2013 4:39 PM 
> > To: Roberson, Akhiem 
> > Subject: Jonathan Samuelson Pharmacy Intern 19539 
>> 
> > Attached 
>> 
> > -- 
>> 
> > Jonathan J. Samuelson 
> > USF College of Pharmacy 
> > Doctor of Pharmacy Candidate 2017 
> > jsamuels@fastmail.fm 

2 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

Kayla Cerritos 
1420 Drew Street 
Clearwater, FL 33755 

RE: Pharmacist Technician Application 

Dear Ms. Cerritos: 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State General & Secretary 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh . state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 

PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Naben 

January 21, 2014 

Si 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 4) 

r . Initial Application for Licensure 
.J. Medical Quality 

H EALTH Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Data 
Profession: REGI STERED PHARMACY TECHN ICIAN 

Application Type: REGISTERED PHARMACY TECHNICIAN INITIAL APPLICATION 

Name: KAYLA M CERRITOS 
Date of Birth: 05/25/1994 
Place of Birth: SEMINOLE, FL 
Email Address: SACERTIFICATIONS@ULTI MATEMEDICALEDU 

Mailing Address 
1420 DREW STREET 
CLEARWATER, FL 33755 

Physical Location or Address of Employment 
1420 DREW STREET 
CLEARWATER, FL 33755 

Phone Numbers 
Home: 727-953-5225 
Business: 727-953-5225 

Equal Opportunity Data 

Gender: FEMALE 
Race: HISPANIC 

Education History 

Course Provider: OTHER 
Course Approved By: FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY APPROVED 
Course Competion Date: 03/26/2013 I 

other Name History 

No Other Name History data entered. 

Secondary Work 

Other State Licenses 

License Number: 
License Type: 
Licensure Date: 
Date of Expiration: 
Country: 
State: 

License Number: 
License Type: 
Licensure Date: 
Date of Expiration: 
Country: 
State: 

Mandatory Continue Education 

Prevention of Medical Errors 

I have completed the Prevention of Medical Errors education required by Florida Statutes, as defined by Rule 

64B7-25. 001(1 )(f), FAC. 
Provider Number: 
Provider/School Name: ULTI MATE MEDICAL ACADEMY 
Course Name/Title: PHARMACY TECHNICIAN 
Date Completed: 03/26/2013 

Criminal History 

Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendere, or no 

contest to, a crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? Your NO 

Date Created: May 302013 12:03PM Page 1 of 4 



(Page 2 of 4) 

Initial Application for Licensure Dlvbion of 
Medical Quahfy 

H EALTH Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Discipline History 

Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacy technician registration, or 
any other professional license you may have in this state or any other state? Your answer: NO 

Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 
jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? Your answer: NO 

Are you presently under investigation or is any disciplinary action pending against you? Your answer: NO 

Questions related to Section 456.0635(2). Rorida Statutes 

Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless Your answer: NO 

of adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, ES. (relating to social and economic 
assistance), Chapter 817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. 

(relating to drug abuse prevention and control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another 
state or jurisdiction? 

For the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the Your answer: N/A 

date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

For the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of the Your answer: N/A 

plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not 

apply to felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes). 

For the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has it Your answer: N/A 

been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any 
subsequent probation? 

Have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for the Your answer: N/A 

felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? 

Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless Your answer: NO 

of adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) 
or 42 ss. 1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid 
issues)? 

Has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence and any Your answer: N/A 

subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended? 

Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Your answer: NO 

Section 409.913, Florida Statutes? 

If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Your answer: N/A 

Florida Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 
Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures Your answer: NO 

established by the state, from any other state Medicaid program? 

Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program for the most recent five Your answer: N/A 
years? 

Did the termination occur at least 20 years before the date of this application? Your answer: N/A 

Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Your answer: NO 

Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

On or before July 1, 2009, were you enrolled in an educational or training program in the Your answer: N/A 

profession in which you are seeking licensure that was recognized by this professions 
licensing board or the Department of Health? 

Additional Information 

Availability for Disaster: Will you be available to provide health care services in special 
needs shelters or help staff disaster medical assistance teams during times of emergency 
or major disaster? Your answer: YES 

Date Created: May 302013 12:03PM Page 2 of 4 



(Page 4 of 4) 

Initial Application for Licensure at 
Medical Quality M5urance 

H EALTH Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Section 456.013(1)(a), ES, requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material 

change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the 

application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form 

the basis of my application and I do authorize the Flonda Board of Pharmacy to make any investtgations they deem 

appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information 

they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any 

municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board 

of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacy technician registration may be revoked or suspended for presenting any false, 

fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection with an application for a license or 

permit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), F.S. 

Date Created: May30 2013 12:03PM 
Page 4 of 4 



RE: Personal History for Registered Pharmacy Techician 

I, Kayla Cerritos, was hospitalized in September of 201 1 as well as December of 2011 while I was under 18 into a 
Pediatric's Pyschiatric Ward. I was diagnosed with Major Depressive Disorder. I was prescribed two antidepressants to 
treat my depression. The only documents I was able to find were from that time. I am currently still taking the two 
antidepressants and am in better health. I have not been admitted to any psychiatric facility since then. I am not currently 
seeing a licensed professional for the depression, so I am not able to get a letter summarizing my diagnosis. I have 
enclosed to only documents I was able to obtain. If there are any questions feel free to contact me at 727-225-1751. 

Thank You, 
Kayla Cerritos 
File Number 51118 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


1. Bioaraphical data 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone 850-245-4292 
http://www.doh state.fl. us/mcia/pharmacy 

RECEIVED 

ITEM #2 - Pharmacy Technician Registration Ap 252013 
FEE: $105.00 

Please print or type legibly Florida boa.o 

Last name First name Middle name 

Street address (ML — Mailing Location) City State Zip 

Work address (PL — Practice Location) City 
14 
State Zip 

(If you are not employed, please list your mailing address 
below). If you have multiple practice locations, please 
submit on an additional sheet, attach with application. 

Al Fl 
Home phone number Business phone number Date of birth 

. 
E-mail address 

Would you be willing to provide health services in 
special needs shelters or to help staff disaster medical 
assistance teams during times of emergency or major 
disasters? 

Yes No 

SEX: 0 Male 

RACE: 0 Caucasian 0 Hispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separate sheet, If necessary. 

Yes No 

Name Date 

DH-MQA PHI 183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 6 

2. EquaY'Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 



4. Have you completed a board approved training course according to Rule 64B16-26.351 (3), ? 
Yes No If yes, include a copy of your completed course certificate. 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes " No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you 

would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor 

traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

6. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacy technician registration, or any other 

professional license you may have in this state or any other state? 

Yes No 

7. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another jurisdiction 
when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

8. Are you presently under investigation or is any disciplinary action pending against ? 
Yes No 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 
Page 3 of 6 



13. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 817, 

F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and control) or 

a similar felony offense(s) in state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to ) 
Yes No 

13a. If yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 

date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 
Yes No 

13b If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes______ No 

13c. If yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has it 

been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

documentation). 

Yes No______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 

U.S.C. ss. 1395-1 396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the 

sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes_______ No______ 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 

409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 

Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

DH-MQA PHI 183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 5 of 6 



Yes No 

________ 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect 

any material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place 

between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might 

affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 

shall form the basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 

investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additiona' information concerning me. I further authorize 

them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 

institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacy technician registration may be 

revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other 

thing, in connection with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.015(2)(a), F.S. 

Applicant 
A/OV. 1/ - 

Date 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 6 of 6 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? (If 
no, do not answer 16a and 16b4 

Yes No 

ISa. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program for 
the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this application? 

Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and ? 
Yes_____ 

18. If yes" to any of the questions l3through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you 

enrolled in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking 
licensure that was recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of 
Health? (If "yes", please provide official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If you 

answer "yes" to any questions in 5-1Gb, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all if 
applicable. 



_i\ 

-. - 
- 

- 

k 

- 

- 





(Page 21 ot 31) 

4 

S 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


C !JJ. 

C VS/pharmacy 

Proof of Completion 

This document verifies that, in accordance with Florida 
Board of Pharmacy requirements, 

(employee name) 

has completed the 

Florida Board of Pharmacy Approved 
C VS/pharmacy® LearnRx Training Program 

(CVS/Caremark License Number RPPT8) 

asof 

(completion date) 

Pharmacy signature 

Date 



22 31) 

Lisa Carlin, PharmD. 
Pharmacy Manager 

CVS Pharmacy #1821 

1690 S. Federal Highway 

Detray Beach, L 33483 

TEL 561-272-1163 
FAX 561-272-6476 

February 23, 2012 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I highly recommend Wandy Alexis as a candidate for the position of Registered 

Pharmacy Technician. Wandy has been employed with CVS pharmacy since Oc- 

tober 2011. Her re have included but are not limited to: typing and 

analyzing 
processing and filling psescdptkns, and problem- 

solving while updating insurance rejections. 

During her time hem she has had an amazing wnpact on the staff and customers. 

Wandy is highly respected by her co-workers for her willingness tO help anyone 

anytime she can. She has been a great asset to our team and contributes excel- 

lent qualities. She is vevy waft ref lafie, and always on time. Wandy 

Would be an excaljerfl addition to your company and I highly recommend her for 

company. Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 

Sincemjy 

Lisa Carfin, RPh, PhamiD 

I 

/ 



(page 23 of 

A 
ebruary 6, 2012 

To Whom It May Concern: 

1321 S. Obde Hwy Suite liE 
Pompano Beach. Honda 33060 

Tel: 954-7885899 Fax: 954-788-5898 
Email 

I highly recommend Wandy Alexis as a candidate for the posilion of Pharmacy 
Ifechnician. Wandy was employed with Quest Lending Corp from 2006 — 2008 in which 
her responsibility included office support (word processing), scheduling appointments, 

overseeing clients financials. 

sf/andy has excellent communication skills. In addition, she is extromely organized and 
rpliable. Wandy can work independently and is able to follow through to ensure that the 
job gets done. She is flexible and willing to work on any project that is assigned to her. 

'andy would be a asset for your company and has my highest 
'rpcommendation. If you have any further questions with regard to her background or 
qualifications, please do not hesitate to call me 954-788-5899. 

Th 

Celestin 
Manager 



(Page 24 of 31) 

H 
1200 NW 51" Street. Boca Roton, Ft.. 33431 

(561) 989-1688 

RE: Wendy Alexis 

¶eb th, 2012 

To Whom It May Concern, 

Wendy Alexis has been working at Yamato 5-Spice Asian Market for over 2 

years as a customer service personneL She's a good worker, quick learner, alert, 
firm, and does not waste time in getting her job done. I'm certain that she will 

any given to her without hesitation. 

Sincerely, 

b Lee 
'CFO/Adminstrator 

5-Spice Asian Street Market 



JUN—01—2012 FRI 02:09 PM NO. P. 01/02 

I 

my WE.g AkxI. 

fs iii i3y bus bius thmy 

Phisu 

J y 



Board of Directors 

President & Chairman 
of the Board: 

Lynn Hover 

Executive Vice President: 
Bernard Finkelstein 

Vice Presidents: 
Kathy Adkins 

Robert Robes 

Secretary 
MarkScheer : 

Treasurer 
Mark labor 

Past Presidents 
Peggy Henry 

Thomas Ehrbar II 

Directors 
Linda Behmoiras 

Sheena Benjamin-Wise 
Nancy Brown 

Steven Brown 
Robin Deyo 

Rosa Feeney 
Jay Foreman 

Karen Foreman 
Skeets Friedkin 
Heidi Johnson 

Lauren Johnson 
Amy Kazma 

Lisa Parks King 
Elyssa Kupferberg 

Neil Meany 
Holly O'Neill 

Cornelius Riley 
Vulieth Rodriguez 

Carrie Rubin 
Jason Solodkiri 

Patty Softis: 
Francisco Torres 

Rhoda Warren 
Sol Zoberman 

Chief Executive Officer 
Ellyn Okrent 

November 5, 2013 

To Whom It May Concern, 

it is my immense pleasure to write this letter of recommendation for Wandey Alexis. I have 

known Wandey for over 10 years both professionally and personally. During that time I have 

grown to respect, admire and trust her. Aside from her strong work ethic, and honesty, she has 

been a tremendous asset to the Center as a volunteer in her child's class. She has a pleasant and 

positive demeanor and is considered one of our best team players. 

Wandey would be an asset to your company, I recommend her without reservation. Should you 

have any questions please feel free to contact me. 

Very Sincerely, 

Mary Henry 

Facilities Manager 

Florence Fuller Child Development Center 

M he nry@ffcdc.org 

P: 561-391-7274 x117 

family iits&j 

S 
City of 

Rota Raton 

Administrative & East Campus. 200 NE 14th Street, Boca Raton, FL 33432 t: 561.391.7274 f; 561.391.6641 
West Campus •10130 185th Street South, Boca Raton, FL 33498 • t: 561.482.3006 f: 561.482.2902 

www.ffcdc.org 
Please remember FFCDC in your estate planning. 

Florence 

Fuiler 

ChUd Development Centers 
big hearts helping little ones 



October 22, 2013 

To whom it may concern, 

Wandey Alexis is an employee at CVS Pharmacy for almost two years. I have been her supervisor for 
at least one year now, during the time that Wandey and I worked together, I found her to be very 
efficient and helpful. 

I feel confident that she will continue to provide good service to the customers and build her 
knowledge so she can grow with the company. 

Sincerely, 

Tamara Jaboin 
ASM Store #770 



trage 1 2) 

I 

ORDER ALLOWING WITHDRAWAL OF APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE 

This mailer came before the Board of Phannacy (berieinafier the "Board") at a duly 

noticed public meeting held on June 6, 2012 in Deerfleld Florida, pursuant to the 

Applicant's request for license. The applicant was preseni The Applicant submitted an o121 

motion to withdraw the application. 

The Board considered the request and voted to allow the withdrawal of the application. 

The application is withdrawn, without prejudice to the Applicant to reapply in the future. 

DONE AND ORDERED this day of 2012. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Executive Director for 
(iiifThi, PharmD, Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by 

Certified Mail to Waiidey Alexis at 6460 N Dixie Highway, Boca Raton, florida 33487; by 

interoffice mail to Allison Dudley, Assistant Attorney (leneral, Office of the Attorney General, 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

iN RE: THE APPLICATION OF 

WANDEY ALEXIS 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
Angel Sanders. 

DATE JuLQSZOIZ 



wage 2 OX 2) 

PL-O1, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050; day of 

T'% 

________, 

2012. 

DeputY Agency Clerk 

00133 1S94 3411 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H Armstrong, MD, FACS 
state, county & community efforts. 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 23, 2014 

April B. Watson 
5130 Dobson Road 
Jay, FL 53982 

RE: Pharmacy Technician Application 

Dear Ms. Watson: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 am. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh .statefL us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sinc ly, 

Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health www.FlorldasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITVER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 8501245-4292• FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fidob 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


H EALTH 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Phone 850-245-4292 
http://www.doh.state.fl uslmpaloharmacy 

NOV 222013 
ITEM #2 - Pharmacy Technician Registration Application 

FEE: $105.00 Florida Board of Pharmacy 

Please print or type legibly 

Last name First name Middle name 

Street address (ML — Mailing Location) City State Zip 

513o Pof\O J FL 
Work address (PL — Practice Location) 
(If you are not employed, please list your mailing address 
below). If you have multiple practice locations, please 
submit on an additional sheet, attach with application. 

City State Zip 

I 6thAñ4 4 
Home phone number Business phone number Date of birth 

Would you be willing to provide health services in 

E-mail address special needs shelters or to help staff disaster medical 
assistance teams during times of emergency or major 
disasters? 

Ctrry) Yes No 

Yes ç No 

Name Date 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 6 

'I 

1. Biographical data 

SEX: D Male 

I '_, V 
2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

D Black DHispanic D Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 
been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) Use a 
separate sheet, if necessary. 



4. Have you completed a board approved training course according to Rule 64B16-26.351 (3), FA.C.? 

Yes No 

_________ 

If yes, include a copy of your completed course certificate. 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes No 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you 
would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor 
traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

6. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacy technician registration, or any other 
professional license you may have in this state or any other state? 

Yes V No______ L'Jth5 

7. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another jurisdiction 
when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No / 
8. Are you presently under investigation or is any disciplinary action pending against you? 

Yes No 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 
Page 3 of 6 



13. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 817, 
F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and control) or 
a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to ) 

Yes No 

13a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes). 

Yes No 

13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has it 
been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 
U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the 
sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes_______ No______ 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

DH-MQA PHi 183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 5 of 6 



Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? (If 
no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program for 
the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this application? 

Yes No 

17. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and ? 
Yes______ No______ 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions l3through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you 
enrolled in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking 
licensure that was recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of 
Health? (If "yes", pleaseyrovide official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No V 
All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If you 
answer "yes" to any questions in 5-16b, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 
certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all if 
applicable. 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect 
any material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place 
between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might 
affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
shall form the basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize 
them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 
institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacy technician registration may be 
revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other 
thing, in onnection with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), F.S. 

V 

Applican Signat re Date 

DH-MQA PHi 183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 6 of 6 



November 13, 2013 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-04 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Enclosed with this application are documents involving my court case beginning in 2009; a letter of 

explanation, copies of court documents, a copy of my resignation form surrendering my Florida Teaching 

Certificate, and an unofficial examination report from the PTCB. Please see the attached letter for 

explanation. 

I have completed the pharmacy technician course and have passed the National Pharmacy Technician 

Certification Exam. I currently work in a pharmacy setting and am requesting that you please consider 

my application for licensure. Thank you so much for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

April B. Watson 



To: Florida State Board of Pharmacy 

From: April Watson 

Re: Letter of Explanation for Felony Charge 

To Whom It May Concern: 

My name is April Watson and I am currently applying for the state of Florida Pharmacy Technician License. I have 

completed a Pharmacy Technician Training Course as well as taken and passed the National Pharmacy 

Technician Certification Exam. I am looking to obtain my state of Florida license. However, I am a convicted felon 

and would like to take a few moments to explain my situation and to ask you to please consider my application 

for licensure. 

I have a degree in math education and was a math teacher for ten years. I taught in Georgia and in Florida and 

truly valued my job as an educator. However, I also suffered from post-partum depression and instead of 

seeking help; I drank to alleviate the depression. Because of this, I made the biggest mistake of my life in July of 

2007. While with a friend and fellow teacher (who was also charged), and while intoxicated, I had sex with a 17 

year old male who was visiting. I do not remember the actions, and can only say that I am very sorry for ever 

being in the wrong place at the wrong time with the wrong people. I was completely embarrassed by my actions 

and decided it was a huge mistake and to move on with my life. 

Two years later, the incident came out to my school board after an anonymous letter was sent. After much 

investigation, I confessed, was arrested, and was later convicted of unlawful sexual activity with a 16/17 year 

old. This law came into effect in 2005 in the state of Florida. Regardless, I was sentenced to 15 months in state 

prison, followed by 5 years of probation which the first 18 months would be on community control. I served my 

sentence and am now over halfway finished with the probationary period. I have completed required counseling 

for sexual offenders and was not recommended for drug or alcohol counseling. I have not had a drink in over 4 

years. 

I am very regretful of making a poor choice, but I also beg of you to consider that I have paid and will continue to 

pay for my crime. I am a mother of two wonderful children and am still married to my husband of eleven years. 

It was a very hard time for us, but we made it through. We just want to move on with our lives and not let this 

incident rule us forever. I am a strong Christian and believe that God will see me through all obstacles of my life 

including my current one of battling breast cancer. I was diagnosed early this summer while taking my pharmacy 

technician course and continued with my course because I am very dedicated to this profession. 

I have worked for the past year in a compounding pharmacy as an office staff member and truly wish to move 

forward with my career. I am a hard worker and I strive to do my best in this profession. Please consider all of 

the above mentioned situations as you consider my application for licensure as a pharmacy technician. It is 

extremely important to me and I beg of you to give me a chance. Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

April Watson 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


discip 
Certif 

certifi 

Comr 

Adrni 

waive 

Order 

10-0329-RI 

An Administrative Complaint seeking disciplinaiy action against the educator's 

ate of Respondent, April Watson, was filed by DR. ERIC J. SMITh, as 

issioner of Education on, May 24, 2010. 

Respondent, holder of Florida educator's certificate number 942710, was served 

copy of the Administrative Complaint. Respondent has filed an answer to the 

istrative Complaint stating that she did not wish to contest the charges, that she 

lany further rights to due process or a public hearing, that she surrendered her 

ate for permanent revocation, and that all her actions were free and voluntary. 

The Administrative COmplaint and the answers are incorporated as part of this 

In consideration of the foregoing, the Education Practices Commission, as 

by ES. 10 12.796, hereby PERMANENTLY REVOKES educator's certificate 

numb?r. 942710, held by ,April Watson. 

Reapplication will not be considered. 

DONE AND ORDERED this li day of October 2010. 

Brian I. Chairperson 
Educatioi( Practices Commission 

¶ 

Before the Education Practices Commission 
of the State 

Administrative Complaint 
mary action against the 
cate of April Watson. 

Final Order 

INDEX NO. 



V V V 'w V V 
J \f \/ 'I \J \/ 'I \/ / 'f \, 

K 

>z 



igjuuoz'UOO? 

National Pharmacy Technician Training Program 

Certificate of Completion 
This is to certify that the pharmacy technician student listed below has completed the National 
Pharmacy Technician Training Program ") offered through the National 
Healthcareer Association, a division of Assessment Technologies Institute, tJ1. document satisfactory completion of the Training Program, the Competency 

form at the end of each chapter of the Training Program has been 
These Competency Assessment forms are maintained on file as indicated 

elow. 

pharmacy technIcian student to complete 
La name: 

WhTSOt\1 Date of Birth; Fl t name: 
A-PR.IL 

Ml dIe name: 

Driver's License number: 

State: FL 

Instructor t a complete La 

4 License No: 

Training start date: 
I 

Location of where the 

Training completion date 

Assessments are stored: 

Name of pharmacy or school: 

Address: 

. IL 

() '3 ( 

- 
of ph nacy technician St' 

of : 
only: By signing this of completion, yod attest that you read the Virginia 

law for the National Pharmacy Technician Training Program on . PLEASE SIGNED QftI(IINAI TO: National Pharmacy Technician Training Program, 11 t61 Overbrook Road, 

KS 66211. 

Keep a of this form on file, a copy for the student and a copy for the application with the Board of 

(If required). 

511 

) 



Candidate Unofficial Examination Report 

April B Watson 

ID: 689567 DATE: November 7, 2013 

REGISTRA1f ION NUMBER: 261539914 SITE: 46963 

NUMBER: 393258216 

EXAM: Technician Certification Examination (PTCE) 

SERIES: PtCE 

Thank you for participating in the 
Pharmacy Technician Certification Examination (PTCE) 

Preliminary Result: Pass 

The result presented above is unofficial, and is subject to 
or invalidation in the event of a testing irregularity, violation of 

test cei'iter rules, or failure to comply with the terms of the Candidate 
Attesta ion. 

Your o icial score report will be available online in approximately one to 
three eks. It will include your final examination result (pass/fail) and total 
score. or passing candidates, PTCB will mail a certificate to the address 
current y on file. If your address has recently changed, please update it 
online I or call 1-800-363-8012. 

Note: 110 ensure the confidentiality of your score information, PTCB will not 
providel examination results or scores by phone, fax, or email. 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

American Specialty Pharmacy, Inc. 
2743 W th Street 
Piano, TX 75075 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sincerely, 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 

www.FloridasHealth.com 
TWITTER:HealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: lobe the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 23, 2014 

RE: Non-Resident Pharmacy Permit Application 

Dear American Specialty Pharmacy, Inc.: 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 

Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 
Telephone (850) 488-0595 

Application Type — Please choose one of the following: 

New Establishment ($255.00 Fee) 

Change of Location ($1 00.00 Fee) 

Change of Ownership (a new permit number will be issued) ($255.00 Fee) 

If applicable, list existing permit number: 

____________________ 

List Federal Employer Identification Number: '71 — 

1. Corporate Name 

2. Doing Business As (dibla) 

d 
3. Mailing Address 

Start Date 

Telephone Number 

it 
7. DEA Registration Number 8. D ou have 24 hour access to atient records? 

YES NO If no explain on separate sheet 

9. Please provide the name, address, telephone number, and permit number of your prescription drug 

wholesale distributor. 
Name 

Zii 

lOa. Provide the Toll-Free Telephone number 

available six days a week for 40 hours below: 

DH-MQA, 1217, 11/12 

Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 

Page 1 of 5 

AEALTH NON-RESIDENT PHARMACY REGISTRATION 

r I 
NOV 142013: 

E3 ot 

Telephone Number 

21b- 
E-Mail Address 

Saturday: 

Prescription Department Hours 

Monday-FridaY Open 

Open: CIQSCpL Close: 

Open: Close: 

Close: 

Sunday: 



Ownership Information 

______________________________________ 

a. Type of Ownership: Individual V' Corporation 

_____Partnership _______Other: 

NOTE: IF CORPORATION OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP YOU MUST INCLUDE WITH YOUR APPLICATION A COPY OF THE ARTICLES OF 

INCORPORATION ON FILE WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATES OFFICE WHERE THE PHARMACY IS 

b. Are the applicants, officers, directors, shareholders, members and partners over the age of ? 
Yes / No 

c. List each person having an ownership interest of 5 percent or greater and any person who, directly or 

indirectly, marn or controls the operation of the applicant Attach a separate sheet if . 
Date of' Address %ofOwnership 

Pursuant to Section 456.0635(2), Florida Statutes, questions 12 through 18 must be answered. If you 

answer yes to any of the following questions, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details and 

submit copies of supporting documentation. 

12. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 

applicant been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, 

a felony under Chapter 409, Chapter 817, or Chapter 893, Florida Statutes; or 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 or 42 

U.S.C. ? (If no, do not answer 13.) 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was 

withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. 

Yes 

___________ 

No V Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic 

offense for the purposes of this question.) 

13. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 

date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 
Yes No 

I 3a. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes). 

Yes No 

has it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 

probation? 

Yes______ No______ 

13c. If "yes" to 12, has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated 

person of the applicant successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for the 

felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

DH-MQA, 1217, 11/12 Page 2 of 5 

Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



14. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15.) 

Yes No 

15. If the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant has been terminated, has the applicant been reinstated and in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No 

16. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state 
or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 17 and 18) 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No 

17. Has the applicant been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare 
program for the most recent five years? / (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No V 
18. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this 

a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No 

19. Are you currently registered or permitted in any other states? If yes, provide the state, permit type, 
and permit number for each permit. Attach a separate sheet if . 
Yes V No 

State Permit Type Permit Number 

20. Has the applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officer, directors, or PDM or Consultant Pharmacist of 
Record ever owned a pharmacy? If yes, provide the name of the pharmacy, the state where the 
pharmacy is located and the status of the pharmacy. Attach a separate sheet if . 
Yes No 

______________(If 

yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Pharmacy Name State Status 

Thtac 

21. Has any disciplinary action ever been taken against any license, permit or registration issued to the 
applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officers, directors or PDM in this state or any ? 
Yes No I (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

22. Is there any other permit issued by the Florida Department of Health located at the physical location 
address on this application? 

Yes 

___________ 

No 

____________ 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

23. Is the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Exclud,ed Individuals and Entities? 

Yes______ No______ 

DH-MQA, 1217, 11/12 Page 3 of 5 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED OR YOUR APPLICATION WILL BE RETURNED 

Section 456.013(1), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change in any 

circumstances or conditions stated in the application, which takes place between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or 

denial of the license, which might affect the decision of the department. 

I certify that the statements contained in this application are true, complete, and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 

basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations that they deem appropriate and to 

secure any additional information concerning me, and I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have or have in the 

future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board, or any municipal, county, state, or federal governmental 

agencies or units, and I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy Statutes that a Pharmacy Permit may be revoked or 

suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection with an application 

for a license or permit, as set forth in Section 465.015(2)(a), F.S. 

Under penalty of perjury I have read the foregoing document and that the facts stated in it are true. I recognize that providing false 
information may result in disciplinary action against my license or criminal penalties. 

SIGNATURE_______________________ TITLE DATE 
Owner/Officer 

DH-MQA, 1217, 11/12 Page 4 of 5 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



Jeanne D. Waggener, .Ph. 
President 
Waco 

Alice G. Mendoza, R.Ph. 
Vice President 
Kingsville 

Dennis F. Wiesner, R.PIi. 
Treasurer 
Austin 

Buford 1. Abetdt, Sr., R.PIt. 

Lufktn 

Christopher M, Dembny, R.Ph. 
Richardson 

W. Benjamin Fry, R.Ph. 
San Benilo 

L. Suzan Kedron 
Dallas 

Bradley A. Miller, CPIiT 
Austin 

TEXAS STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Phyllis A. Slice Prior Disciplinary Orders: 
Abilene 

Joyce A. Tipton, R.PII. 
Houston 

Charles F. Wcthcrbee 
Boerne 

Gay Dodson, R.Ph. 
hxecutive Director Secretary 
Austin 

The Texas State Board of Pharmacy maintains records regarding licensure and 
disciplinary action against a licensee. As of the date of the receipt of the request for 
license verification (September 26, 2013), American Specialty Pharmacy, (Texas 
Pharmacy License #28002) has not been subject to disciplinary action by the Texas State 
Board of Pharmacy. 

Form Completed by: 

Allison Benz, R.Ph., M.S. 
Director of Professional Services 
Texas State Board of Pharmacy 

October 18. 2013 
Date 

The Texas Department of State Health Services. Drugs and Medical Devices Division, Wholesaler Registration, 1100 W. ih 
Street, Austin, TX 78756, is responsible for issuing registrations to wholesale drug distributors and drug manufacturers in 
Texas. 

333 Guadalupe Street Suite 3-600 Austin, Texas 78701-3943 512-305-8000(voice) 512-305-8082(fax) www.tsbp.state.tx.us 

Re: 

Address: 

License No.: 

Date Issued: 

Licensure Status: 

Expiration Date: 

Type of Pharmacy: 

American Specialty Pharmacy 

2414 Babcock Rd, Suite 111 

San Antonio, TX 78229 

28002 

April 18, 2012 

Active 

April 30, 2014 

Community — Class A 

No 





NOTICE QF INSPECTION 
• Texas State Board of. -. 
333 GuadatuPO Streets Suite 

Texas 
(51.2) 305-8000. 

f 
p 1 

PURPOSE OF INSPEcTION 

(1) Routine — (3) PreceptOr * (4) Fol'ow-UP to Warning Notice 

_(7) New Pharmacy — (8) (15) -lnSpecttofl (17) FolloW-UP to Complaint 

j18) to Theft/LOSS Report — (121 Oth__— 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT / 

ThsiS to that Texas Stà(é Board of Pharmacy Agent 

has presented official credentials and ttirs Notice of InspectiOn citing SectionS 554 001 556 001 556 051-556 054 and 

556 101 of the Texas Pharmacy Act which authorizes an inspection of the above described facility By my signature I 

hereby adcnowledge receipt this Notice Inspection and certify that 

I am the V 
- 

2 have read this Notice of Inspection end understand its contents and 

I have the authonty to act in this matter and have sgned thts Notice Of Inspection pursuant to my authority 

4 have had the purpose of the entry Into the above described by the Bo&d s agent stated to me and 

5 have consented to an inspection of the -described facility voluntarily and without any manner of threats 

Witnesses 

Signature 

Signature 

/ • • • • 

• . • . 

Signature .lwt . 



TEXAS OP PHARMACY INSPECTION REPORT . 

CLASS:. B. C.(BED$) D Other:___ 
of Ptiarmacy 1 1 TSBP License # L Pharmacist 4n Charge 

Exp Personnel . . 

. 1) . 

Lie-. Exp_____ 
Lie 

. 

Lie Exp_ KEY Circled items need improvement, items in Column One Refer to Legal Division (RIL) for review and possible discipline 
items in Column Two receive a Warning Notice (W/N). For an explanation of irted refer to remarks seotton of inspection report 

I WIN 
. Rri. — 

. 

. 

:. 
— 

— * 

1 . 

— 
: Licenses not posted 

•T 

T y5ian 

Failed 

. Equipment Inspection 

6 Inadequate Library 

T W: 

D 
/ — 

Delinquent 

notification of 
.. 

90 No complaint 
notification 

— 
. Area for non sterile 

43 Records steille 
— 

:- 

. 

of date/rniaiabeled 

IrripfQper drug storage 

of 
C1S .. : 

. 

-. Corresponding- 
— 
: :. .- Improper drug- 

.. 

destruction 
at 

62 
— * Aiding and abetting 

' 55 
1 

13 

. 

— rocedures ionj. 
Sampies --- 

78: 

3 

- 
: ---- 

NoP1C 

Noation. 

3 Impraer.automated 
tispensing procedures 

-- Date of last 

inventory 
- 

No tharige of ownership y. - 

Glosed Phoylchange of 
Owner improper - 

lnodmplete lwentoiy 

- 1 31 

17 

13 
- Recr*ds riot available 

. 46 - Improper distribution - 

- 54 

—4-— 
- 

- 24 

-I V 

prepaclcaging 

- 
riot reported 

. .30 invoices not datediinutialed 

86 Absence of RPh pick 

-19 
records - 

- Rx lacks inknmaeion 
— 

- 25 . 

- 

proper 
—----- 

at.refltl 
- 

.. 

authorization 
Rx label - 

Non emergency C-H Rx: 

26 
- C II Rxnor*oornpiianoe 

. 37 ng 
- 

Refill CW-V over 
- 

44 
- 

' 

- 55 
. Reflllprn past oneyaar:.. 

78 Counseling area 

80 Na coun$eting by RPh 

- - 

: - improper transfer of Rir 

- 

- IforCiS 

— * 
-50 

. 

49 
- -- -- . 

. 

33- 
nônoom 
.Rx records not in 

4 

- 10 - 

- -- 
. 

- 
.35- 

- 

- 

— 
- 

Rxsnotseparated 
.---- 

Invoices- not Separatert 

- Mo written information 
- 
8-7 

. 

21 

22 

Computer records 

Computer System 

82 
iance 

- PMRlnomplete 

. 63 PMR Absent - 

. .84 
- -No drug regimen revIew 

16 - 

- No perpetUal Inventory 

. 27. .. 
-. Improper inpatient 

- 

lrnpropei' ER dispensing. 

75 —-- Improper absence.of - 

— 
- 

— —; 

- 

Incomplete P&P manual 
— - 

71 
* 

- 

72 
- 

Improper prt,oedures for 

81 
-- A- 

- 
- 85 

- V sterile products 
Patient Care Guidelines - 

87 
-Incomplete - 

Quality 
— 

- . . 

- - - 

: - 
- 

.89: 

28 

. 

. 

Refrigerator -- 

NO provision log 

52 - 

- Improper ionl 
63 .--: Prohibited.drugs in Class 

.--- 
- i 

- I- 
- 

-.Viclation of limited -- 

forrnulary - --- - tact - 

documentation 

RIL WIN 

- - 

3 - 

- mentation of ino 



AcUon Thken 

(1 
(2)_Partial Inspection.. 

An agent ofthe Texas State Board of has inspected your pharmacy. The results of this inspection have been noted Items marled in Column One will be referred to the Legal Division for review and possible thsciphnary action hems marked in Column Two are cOnditions that have resulted in the Issuance of a Warning Notice and must be corrected to ensure compliance with the laws and rules governing the practice of pharmacy Circled items need improvement 

Agent of State Board of Pharmacy 

I 3 6 
lime 

I acknowledge that the noted conditions which are not in 
compliance, have been explained to me. and 
I have received a of this rsport. 

) 

-• 

-, .. A 7 

(10) Pre-Inspection 
(9)Other 

. 

Authorized Individual the 

— 

Printed Name Titleof Authorized .IndMdual 

Texas State Board Pharmacy . . .. last page. 



T
exas S

tate B
oard of P

harm
acy. 

333 
S

uite 
B

ox 21 

A
ustifl, T

exas 
P

hone 13056000 

W
A

R
N

IN
G

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

U
canse # 

.—
.-—

—
 

N
am

e ot 

____________ 

—
 

U
canee 

N
A

M
E

 O
P

 hereby given that yotf are nO
t ccm

plyrng w
hh the 

aw
a and 

rulas 

iha practice of 

i. Law
/R

ue 
. 

E
anatol%

 
voaiO

n_...___________________________ 

2 * of 
. 

I e —
 

. 

01 
alton_ 

—
 

is atec hereby ow
en that unless the 00 IdlitO

ris noted aoove are o 
rreeted and a w

rttten 

report det*hflg the curtecftons la 
ks the E

xecutive that/S
ecretary of the T

exas 

S
tate B

oard of P
harm

acy on or before 

______________ 

disciplinary action m
ay be 

your license. 

T
exas S

tale S
oarrt ol P

harm
acy 

D
ale 

il/rio 

hereby 
Im

ow
ledge that the law

s and ot trues 

cued above have been explauned itt m
e and 

that Ifiave 
a copy i flits notice. 

S
igned 

R
E

SPO
N

SE
 T

O
 W

A
R

N
IN

U
 ) 

J 

N
am

e of F
acility 

tn the apace prO
vided below

, flO
w

 the U
nitac 

N
otice 

w
ere corrected. 001401 R

E
S

P
O

N
D

 U
N

T
IL

 T
hE

 C
O

R
R

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 H
A

V
E

 B
E

E
N

 

M
U

S
T

 
C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
 

H
Y

 T
H

E
 ctA

T
E

 IN
D

IC
A

T
E

D
 O

N
 

LE
F

T
 O

ID
E

 O
F

 T
IN

S
 F

O
R

M
 

E
xplanatIon of 

3_- 

D
ate 

fT
he person fueled in the blank tiltO

d 
O

F
 P

E
R

S
O

N
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

" m
ust 

aigri 
,. 

- 

C
 

M
ail anttr* 

copy to T
exas 

B
oard of P

ham
tacy arid retaIn entire yellow

 cttpytor 



T
exas S

tate B
oard of P

harm
acy 

333 
S

treet, S
uite 

B
ox 21 

A
ustin, T

exas 78701 
P

hone: 512/3054000 

W
A

R
N

iN
G

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

ise 

_____________ 

ot F
actiity 

iy —
 

.. 
Z

ip __. 
—

 
P

riarm
e 1 icenses 

. 

________ 

N
A

M
E

 O
F E

R
SO

N
 

- 

____________ 

ice is hereby given that you era not ing ith the ing law
s and oi M

ae 
yarning the practice ut pharm

acy 

t. 
.. 

______ 

E
xpianation ol ran 

_______ 

- 
a. 

on 

_______ 

3 
Liw

IR
ule 

_____ 

E
xptanal$w

t of 
olailon 

is also hereby 
Q

iven that 
the 

noted above are corredod ano 
a w

ritteir 
report detailing 

T
he correchO

le Is 
s 

of P
harm

acy on or before 
. i 

action m
ay be 

agernel your license 

I hereby cc 
ledge thel 

T
he law

s and or rbtes 
cited above have been aepleined to m

e end 
that 

nave 
a copy of lhia notice 

A
gint, 

late B
oard of P

harm
acy 

U
ate 

S
igned 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 
N

O
T

IC
E

 

P
haxroacy License 

________ 

of ility 

E
xplain, in 

the space provided 
the U

nsanstsclcry;w
arning N

ctice ons 
w

ere corrected 
D

O
 N

O
T

 R
E

S
P

O
N

D
 U

N
T

IL. T
hE

 C
O

R
R

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 H
A

V
E

 B
E

E
N

 
C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
. C

O
R

R
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 M

U
S

T
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 D
A

T
E

 IC
A

T
E

D
 O

N
 

T
H

E
 LE

F
T

 S
ID

E
 O

P
 T

H
IS

 
F

O
R

M
 

E
xplanation of C

orrectior 

__________ 

1 

* 

__________ 
___________________ 

2. 

______ 

3 

'—
-S

.- 
nts 

I 
'S

 
- 

te 
- 

frhe parson batedin T
he blank trued 

- 

O
F

 P
E

R
S

O
N

 
m

ust 
sign 

- 
License # 

M
alt 

W
hIle copy to T

exas S
tate B

eard of P
harm

acy arid retain entire yellow
 copy for 

your flIes 



T
exas S

tate B
oard at P

harm
acy 

333 
Staft 

3-800. B
ox 21 

A
ustht, T

exas 181014942 

Phone: $1213054000 

W
A

R
N

IN
G

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

LfcenaS
 # 

of 

A
ddress 

C
ity 

ucenee 

PE
R

SO
N

 

N
otice 

hereby given that you are not com
plying w

ith the 
law

s and 
rules 

vem
irig the p 

ctlce of pharm
acy 

1. L
aW

fR
u 

of 

—
-—

 
'.... 

2. 

of of 

--—
---------—

 
alac hereby given that unleS

s 
noted abO

ve are 
and ii w

ritten 

report 
the coaecliofls is subm

itted tO
 the E

xecutive 
of the T

eses 

S
tate $oatd 

an ot 
fore 

m
ay be 

instltuleO
 against your licence. 

I hereby acknow
ledge 

that m
e law

s aed oc 

cited above have been esplained to m
e end 

that 
I have received 

a copy of this notice. 

uy 
A

gent. T
eias S

late B
oetd of P

harm
acy 

O
de 

. 
S

igned 

R
E

SPO
N

SE
 T

O
 W

A
R

N
IN

G
 N

O
T

IC
E

 

N
arita of 

. 

Ifi 
space pio 

ted below
, how

 the i 
N

otice conditions 

w
ere corrected. D

O
 N

O
T

 R
E

S
P

O
N

D
 U

N
ItL T

H
E

 C
O

R
R

E
C

T
iO

N
S

 H
A

V
E

 $E
E

N
 

'f E
D

. 
O

N
E

 M
U

S
T

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 E
Y

 T
H

E
 D

A
T

E
 IN

D
IC

A
T

E
D

 O
N

 

T
H

S
 LE

F
T

 S
tO

E
 

T
N

t S
 F

O
R

M
. 

E
xplartatk3fi of 

- A
dditional com

m
ents 

D
ate 

(T
he person listed i the tilarik lifted 

O
F

 P
E

R
S

O
N

 ' 
m

ust 

sign 

M
ail anthe w

hIte copy to exas S
tete B

oard of P
harm

acy end 
antke yU

O
W

 copy fot 



T
exas S

tate B
oard of P

harm
acy 

333 G
uadalupe S

treet, S
uite 3.400, S

oz 21 
T

exas 78701-3942 

W
A

R
N

IN
G

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

P
harm

acy U
cense 

___________ 
________ 

_______ 

aa 
C

ity 

License # 

_____________ 
_______ 

—
 

N
A

M
E

 O
F

 heieby w
en that you are not 

w
tth the 

Law
s and or nilea 

prec*tce of 

1 

__________ 
_________ 

________________ —
* 

of 

___________ 
________________ 

_________ 

E
xplenettan 

_______ 
_______________________ 

of 

N
ottce-te afac hereby 

the; unless the conditions noted abO
ve a(e C

orrected and a Itten 
repol detethnig the conecttons is ittted ;o the 

F
e 

or/S
e 

etery of the T
exas 

S
tate B

oard of 
on or before 

, diacipuneny action m
aybe 

lU
tuled 

your Iicenst. 

I hereby acknow
ledge that the taw

a Id or rules 
died above have been explained to m

a and 
that thave received a copy of thie notIce, 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 W
A

R
N

IN
G

 N
O

T
IC

E
 

P
harm

acy License # 
- 

E
xplain, in the apace p;ovkied below

, how
 the U

nsetistaclory/W
enatag 

w
ere coireO

td. D
O

 N
O

T
 R

E
S

P
O

N
D

 U
N

T
IL T

H
E

 
H

A
V

E
 B

E
E

N
 

C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

. C
O

R
H

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 M
U

S
T

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 D

A
T

E
 IN

D
IC

A
T

E
D

 O
N

 
T

H
E

 LE
F

T
 S

D
E

 O
F

 T
H

tS
 F

O
R

M
. 

E
xplanation of C

rectron: 

S
 

5-. 
- 

com
rriertls: 

S
tate B

oaril of P
harm

acy 

D
ale 

11/00 

D
ate 

(T
he person rated in the i 

131 ted 
N

A
M

E
 O

F
 P

E
R

S
O

N
 

irusf 
sign hare 

- 
Lrcenee# 

M
alt itlre w

hit. copy to T
exas S

tate B
oard of P

hannacy end retain entIre yellow
 copy for 

outiU
ee. 

- 
- 



Form2Ol 

Secretary of State 
P.O. Box 13697 
Austin, TX 78711-3697 
FAX: 512/463-5709 

Certificate of Formation 
Filing Fee: $300 For-Profit Corporation 

Article 4 - Authorized Shares 

The total number of shares the corporation is authorized to issue and the par value of each of such shares, ora 
statement that such shares are without par value, is set forth below. 

Number of Shares Par Value (must choose and complete either A or B) - Class Series 

1000000 A. has a par value of $.001 r B. without par value. 
If the shares are to be divided into classes, you must set forth the designation of each class, the number of shares of each class, and the par value 
(or statement of no par value), of each class. If shares of a class are to be issued in series, you must provide the designation of each series. The 
preferences, limitations, and relative rights of each class or series must be stated in space provided for supplemental information. 

Article 5 - Purpose 

The purpose for which the corporation is organized is for the transaction of any and all lawful business for which 
corporations may be organized under the Texas Business Organizations Code. 

Supplemental Provisions I Information 

The attached addendum, if any, is incorporated herein by reference.] 

Filed in the Office of the 
Secretary of State of Texas 

Filing #: 801280272 06/10/2010 
Document #: 311366610002 

Image Generated Electronically 
for Web Filing 

Article 1 - Entity Name and Type 
The filing entity being formed is a for-profit corporauon. The name of the entity is: 

AMERICAN SPECIALTY PHARMACY, INC 
The name must contain the word corporation, "company," "incorporated,' 'limited,' or an abbreviation of one of these terms. The name must not - 

be the same as, deceptively similar to or similar to that of an existing corporate, limited liability company, or limited partnership name on file with 
the secretary of state. A preliminary check for "name availability" is recommended. 

Article 2 — Registered Agent and Registered Office 
rA. The initial registered agent is an organization (cannot be corporation named above) by the name of: 

OR 

The initial registered agent is an individual resident of the state whose name is set forth below: 
Name: 
ABDUL HAMEED 
C. The business address of the registered agent and the registered office address is: 

Street Address: 
1910 SAGEBRUSH TRAIL RICHARDSON TX 75080 

Consent of Registered Agent 
flA. A copy of the consent of registered agent is attached. 

OR 
WB. The consent of the registered agent is maintained by the . 
The number of directors constituting the initial board of directors and the names and addresses of the person or 
persons who are to serve as directors until the first annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are 
elected and qualified are set forth below: 

Director 1: ABDUL HAMEED 
Address: 1910 SAGEBRUSH TRAIL RICHARDSON TX, USA 75080 

Article 3 - Directors 



Effectiveness of Filing 

________ 

This document becomes effective when the document is filed by the secretary of state. 
OR 

EB. This document becomes effective at a later date, which is not more than ninety (90) days from the date of its 
signing. The delayed effective date is: 

Organizer 

The name and address of the organizer is set forth below. 
ZAHID REZA, CPA 6210 CAMPBELL RD, STE 150, DALLAS, TX 75248 

Execution 
The undersigned affirms that the person designated as registered agent has consented to the appointment. The 
undersigned signs this document subject to the penalties imposed by law for the submission of a materially false or 
fraudulent instrument and certifies under penalty of perjury that the undersigned is authorized under the provisions of 
law governing the entity to execute the filing instrument. 

ZAHID REZA, CPA 
Signature of organizer 

FILING OFFICE COPY 



Franchise Tax Account Status 
Asof 11/01/2013 10:29:31 AM 

This Page is Not Sufficient for Filings with the Secretary of State 

AMERICAN SPECIALTY PHARMACY, INC 

Texas Taxpayer Number 32042021157 

Mailing Address 2743 W 15TH ST 
PLANO, TX 75075-7525 

Right to Transact Business in ACTIVE 

State ofFormation TX 

Effective SOS Registration 06/10/2010 

https://ourcpa.cpa.state.txus/coa/serAet/cpa.app.coa.CoaGetTp 1/1 

11/1/13 Franchise Tax Account Status 

Texas 

Date 

Texas SOS File Number 

Registered Agent Name 

Registered Office Street 
Address 

0801280272 

ABDUL HAMEED 

1910 SAGEBRUSH TRAIL 
RICHARDSON, TX 75080 



Q DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 
REVENUE SERVICE 

CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023 

Date of this notice: 06-10-2010 

Employer Identification Number: 
27-2824193 

Form: SS-4 

Number of this notice: CP 575 A AMERICAN SPECIALTY PHARMACY INC 
1910 SAGEBRUSH TRL 
RICHARDSON, TX 75080 For assistance you may call us at: 

1-800-829-4933 

IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE 
STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE. 

WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN). We assigned you EIN 27-2824193. This ElM will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, and documents, even if you have no employees. Please keep this notice in your permanent 
records. 

When filing tax documents, payments, and related correspondence, it is very important that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown above. Any variation may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect information in your account, or even cause you to be assigned more than one EIN. If the information is not correct as shown 
above, please make the correction using the attached tear off stub and return it to us. 

Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file 
the following form(s) by the date(s) shown. 

Form 1120 03/15/2011 

If you have questions about the form(s) or the due date(s) shown, you can call us at 
the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you 
need help in determining your annual accounting period (tax year), see Publication 538, Accounting Periods and Methods. 

We assigned you a tax classification based on information obtained from you or your 
representative. It is not a legal determination of your tax classification, and is not 
binding on the IRS. If you want a legal determination of your tax classification, you may 
request a private letter ruling from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure 
2004-1, 2004-1 IRB 1 (or superseding Revenue Procedure for the year at issue). Note: 
Certain tax classification elections can be requested by filing Form 8832, Entity 
Classification Election. See Form 8832 and its instructions for additional information. 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR S CORPORATION ELECTION: 

If you intend to elect to file your return as a small business corporation, an 
election to file a Form 1120-S must be made within certain timeframes and the 
corporation must meet certain tests. All of this information is included in the 
instructions for Form 2553, Election by a Small Business Corporation. 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: lobe the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 23, 2014 

Trinity Care Solutions 
1731 Sw nd Avenue, Suite B 
Ocala, FL 34471 

RE: Special Parenteral and Enteral Pharmacy Permit Application 

Dear Trinity Care Solutions: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh .state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sincer ly, / 
Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy ITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PRONE: FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: tldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FLORIDA BOARD OF 
PHARMACY 

P.O. Box 6320 
Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 
Telephone (850) 488-0595 

SPECIAL PHARMACY PERMIT APPLICATION 

DH-MQA, 1220, 11112 Page 1 ot 9 

Rule 64B16-28100, F.A.C. 

H EALTH 

.LJ 
ID' 20419 

BT: 3007884 
ni 

255.00 

Type: F 

Application Type — Please choose one of the following: 
New Establishment $255 fee 
Change of Location $100 fee 

____________(exisbng 

permit number) 

Change of Ownership (a new permit number will be issued) $255 

________________(existing 

pennit number) 

Additional Permit Type $255 fee 

__________(existing 

permit number) 

Type of Special Pharmacy Permit - Please choose one of the following: 

_____Special- 

Limited Community_i_Special- Parenteral and Enteral SpecIal- Closed System Pharmacy 

_____Special- 

ESRD Special- Parenteraf/Enteral Extended Scope__ Special- ALF 

CommunitylSpecial Parenteral and Enteral Special- Closed System Pharmacy/Parenteral and Enteral 

Will the Pharmacy Dispense Schedule II andlor Ill Controlled Substances? .Yes 
Please list your Federal Employer Identification 
Number 

2. Doing Business As (dlbla) E-Mail Address 

yaLbt>.c.oni 
3. Mailing Address 

8 
City state Zip 

— 3%.1t17 I 

4. Physical Address 

City State (Zip 

5. List Prescription Department Manager (PDM) or Consultant Pharmacist of Record 

Name License No. Start Date Signature 

6. Contact Person 
( 1/i 

Telephone Number 

\ .21 - I I 

90 7. DEA isfration Number 8. Date ready for inspection (must be days 
ofthedateoftheappliCatiOfl) 0 11 

9. Please provide the name, address, telephone number of your prescription drug 

wholesale distributor. If not available you may write in . 
Name Telephone Number Permit Nuipber 

Street Address City State Zip' 
Pt 

10. Pharmacy Technician Ratio 2:1 or 3:1 (Optional) 



Rule 64B16-27.410, Florida Administrative Code, provides that the prescription department manager or 

consultant pharmacist of record is required to submit a written request and receive approval from the Board of 

Pharmacy prior to the pharmacy allowing a pharmacist to supervise more than one registered pharmacy 

technician. If you would like to apply for the Registered Pharmacy Technician 2:1 or 3:1 ratio, you may do so 

by checking the appropriate selection below. Selecting an option below serves as your written request to the 

board office for approval to practice with a 2:1 or 31 ratio. 

2:1 Ratio 3:1 Ratio 

(please attach a brief description of the workflow needs that indude the operating hours of the pharmacy, 

number of pharmacist, registered interns and registered pharmacy technicians employed to justify the ratio ) 
ii. OperatlngHours Ila. Speclal.Parenteral&Enteral; 

Provide Toll-Free Telephone Below: 

Prescription Department Hours 

Monday-Friday: Open q k Close: 

Saturday: Open: — Close: — 

Sunday: Open: — Close: 

b 0 ) 
'1 - 

Ownership Information 

a. Type of Ownership: Corporation 

NOTE: IF CORPORATION OR LIMifED PARTNERSHIP YOU MUST INCLUDE WITH YOUR APPUCAT1OH A COPY OF THE ARTiCLES OF 

OFFICE INCORPORATION ON FILE WITH THE FLORIDA SECRETARY OF 

b. Are the applicants, officers, directors, shareholders, members and partners over the age of ? 
Yes No 

c. Does the corporation have more than $100 million of business taxable assets in this ? 
Yes No if yes, provide ion from Certified Public Accountant for previous tax 

year or Florida Corporate Income/Franchise and Emergency Excise Tax 

Return (F-1120). If no, continue to 12d. 

d List all the owners and officers of the corporation Each person listed below having an ownership Interest of 5 

percent or greater and any person who, directly or indirectly, manages, oversees, or controls the operation of the, 

applicant Including officers and members of the board of directors must submit a set of fingerpilnts and fees 

unless you answered yes to 12c. If 12c is yes please list the owners below and only submit fingerprints for the 

Prescription Department Manager or 'Pharmaclst of Record. If 12c is yes and the prints are on tile with 

DOH or AHCA and available to the Board of Pharmacy the requirement to submit the prints for this person is met. 

Attach a separate sheet if necessatv. - 

OwnerlOfficer-TItIe Date of Birth Mailing Address, City State, Zip Code OwnershIp 

1$2.L/ cr 
I / % II II % 

/ I 

13. Has anyone listed in 12.d had an o 
business perniit which was disciplined, 

wnership interestof 5% or more in a pharmacy or any other 
suspended, revoked, or closed involuntanly within the past 5 

, 

years'?.. , 
,: H. . -- .. - 

Yes No )( It yes, please provide a signed affidavit disclosing the reason the entity was dosed 

DH-MQA, 1220, 11/12 Page 2 of 9 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



13a Has anyone listed in 12 d had an ownership interest of 5% or more in a pharmacy or any other 
business permit which was voluntarily relinquished or closed voluntarily within the past 5 years? 

Yes No ' If yes, please provide a ngned affidavit disclosing the reason the entity was closed. 

14. Has anyone listed in 124 ever obtained a pharmacy permit by misrepresentation or fraud or been 
convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contender to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any 
jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud? 
Yes No If yes, please provide documents concerning this conviction. 

Pursuant to Section 456.0635(2) and 465.022(5), Florida Statutes, questions 15 through 21 are being 
asked. If you answer yes to any of the following questions, explain on a separate sheet providing 
accurate details and submit copies of supporting documentation. - 

15. Haè the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
licantbeen convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, 
a felony under Chapter 409, Chapter 817, or Chapter 893, FlorIda Statutes, or a simIlar felony offense In 
another state or jurisdiction since July 1, 2009? If yes, provide court documents concerning this ) 
Yes________ No_______ 

I 5a. If "yes" to 15, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does 
not apply to felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes______ No 

15b. If "yes" to 15, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida 
Statutes, has it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of 
any subsequent probation? 

Yes______ No 

I 5c. If "yes" to 15, has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or 
affiliated person of the applicant successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in 
the plea for the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please 
provide supporting documentation). 

Yes_____ No .i/ii 
16. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person Of the 
applicant been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contenders to, regardless of adjudication 
to a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss.801-970 or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396 since 

Yes__________ No 

____________(If 

yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

16a. If "yes" to 16, has it been more than 15-years before the date of application since the 
sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended? - 

Yes_____ No_____ 

DH-MQA, 1220, 11/12 Page 3 of 9 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



17. I have been provided and read the statement from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
regarding sharing, retention, privacy and right to challenge incorrect criminal history records and the 
"Privacy Statement" document from the Federal Bureau of Investigation. (Found on Page 8 of this 
application.) 

Yes 1K No 
18. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated fOr cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no,do not answer 19.) 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Yes No 

19. If the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant has been terminated, has the applicant been reinstated and in good standmg with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Yes No 

20. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state 
or federal government, from anyóther state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(if no, do not answer21 and 22) 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No 

21. Has:the applicant been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare 
program for the most recent five years? 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Yes No 

22. Did the termination occur atleast 20 years prior to the date of this 
a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Yes No 

23. is the applicant or any prihcipal, officer, , managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant listed on the United States Department of Health Human Services Office of Inspector General's 
List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

Yes No ' yes, submit proof) 
24. Are you currently registered or permitted in any other states? If yes, provide the state, permit type, 
and permit number for each permit Attach a separate sheet if necessary 

Yes No 

State Permit Type Permit Number 

25 Has the applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officer, directors, or PDM or Consultant Pharmacist of 
Record ever owned a pharmacy? if yes, provide the name of the pharmacy, the state where the 
pharmacy is located and the status of the Attach a separate heet if . 
Yes No — (If yes, please list them below, you may provide additional sheet) 

Pharmacy Name State Status 

DI1-MQA, 1220, 11/12 Page 4 of 9 
Rule F.A.C. 



26. Has any disciplinary actionever been taken against any license, permit or registration issued to the 
applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officers directors or Consultant Pharmacist of Record in this 
state or any other? 

Yes 

__________ 

No (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details and submit 

documentation from the licensing agency who took the disciplinary action) 

27. Has the applicant, or any officer, member or partner ever been convicted of a felony or 
misdemeanor, excluding minor traffic convictions? 

Yes No 

_______________________ 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if 

adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while 

impaired is a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

28. is there any other permit issued by the Department of Health located at the physical location 
address on this application? .. 

No 

___________ 

Yes 

__________ 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

29. Does the applicant, affiliatedperson, partner, officer, director have anyputstandlng fines, liens or 
overpayments assessed by a oider the'aepartment? If yes, please answer 29a. 

No Yes (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Does the applicant, affiliated officer, director have plan by 
the department? 

No______ Yes_____ 

30. is the policy an4 procedure manual for preventing controlled substance dispensing based on 
fraudulent representation or invalid practitioner-patient relationship available for Inspection by DOH? 

No Yes_______ 

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED OR YOUR APPLICATION WILL BE RETURNED 

Section 456.013(1). F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change in any 
circumstances or conditions stated in the application, which takes place between the initial filing of the application and the final grantor 
denial of the license, which might affect the decision of the department. 

I certify that the statements contained in this application are true, complete, and correct and I agree that said statements shaH form the 
basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations that they deem appropriate and to 
secure any additional information concerning me, and I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have or have in the 
future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board, or any municipal, county, state, or federal governmental 
agencies or units, and I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy Statutes that a Pharmacy Permit may be revoked or 
suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection with an application 
for a license or permit, as set forth in Section 465.015(2)(a), F.S. 

Under penalty of perjury I have read the foregoing document and that the facts stated in it are true. I recognize that providing false 
information may result in disciplinary action against my license or criminal penalties. 

SIGNATURE - - fiThE 

Owner/Officer 

DH-MQA. 1220. 11/12 Page 5 of 9 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



- PAUL W. FRANCK OR . . . ® ANN N. FRANCK . 

I - 

ala —— $ s s 

SUNTRUST -.. . . . . -. . .. . . 

ACU RI - - - ... 

L.. 



F
il' 0 

U
I 

F
 

, 
, 

):I 

C
., 

• 
. 

LI: 



- - Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

of all people in Florida through integrated John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
slate, county & community efforts. 

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vtsion: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

TO: Allison Tate, R.Ph., C.Ph., Senior Pharmacist 

FROM: Heidi Nith 
Regulatory Specialist U 

DATE: December11, 2013 

Please review the attached questionnaire from the pharmacy applicant listed below and return within 
30 days. Please return this form by fax to (850) 413-6982. 

TRINITY CARE SOLUTIONS LLC 
1731 Sw2nd Ave 
SUITE B 
Ocala, FL 34471 

The ove mentioned pharmacy appticant questionnaire is: 

APPROVED 

El DENIED 

Signature 

(2 /1-73 
Date 

lth.com 
Florida Department of Health lthyFLA 
Division of Medical Quality Assurance. Bureau of HCPR FACEBOOK:FLOepartmentofHealth 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C04• Tallahassee, FL 32399 YOUTUBE fldoh 
PHONE: (850) 245-4292 FAX: (850) (850) 413-8982 

Created on 12/11/2013 8:28 AM 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Detail by Entity Name Page 1 of2 

IRINITY CARE SOLUTIONS, 

Filing Information 
Document Number 
FEIIEIN Number 
Date Filed 
State 
Status 
Last Event 
Event Date Filed 
Event Effective Date 

Principal Address 
1731 SW 2ND AVENUE 
SUITE B 
)CALA, FL 34471 

Changed: 10/11/2013 

Mailing Address 
1731 SW2NDAVENUE 
SUITE B 
OCALA, FL 34471 

FRANCK, ANN 
1731 SW 2ND AVENUE 
SUITE B 

OCALA, FL 34471 

L060001 11228 

205909785 

11/16/2006 

FL 

ACTIVE 

LC AMENDMENT 
10111/2013 

NONE 

\Iame Changed: 10/11/2013 

Name & Address 

ritle MGRM 

Detail by Entity Name 

Florida Limited Liability Company 
LLC 

10/11/2013 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

Changed: 10/11/2013 

Manager/Member Detail 

FRANCK, ANN 
1731 Sw 2ND AVENUE, SUITE B 

OCALA, FL 34471 

I 1 1 ') 



Detail by Entity Name Page 2 of 2 

Reports 

Report Year Filed Date 

2011 03/16/2011 

2012 03/16/2012 
Home Contact Us -Filing Services Document Searches Forms Help 

2013 04/26/2013 

Document Images 

Amendment image in 

10108/2013 -- LC Amendment and Name Change Tview image in PDF 

04/26/2013 --ANNUAL REPORT image in PDF ] 
03/16/2012 -- ANNUAL REPORT image in PDF format 

03/16/2011 -- REPORT image in PDF ] 
03/18/2010-- ANNUAL REPORT image in PDF 

04/07/2009 -- ANNUAL REPORT Tview image in PDF ] 
04/15/20P8 -- REPORT image in PDF ] 
04/17/2007 -- ANNUAL image in PDF 

11/16/2006 -- Florida Limited Liability image in PDF format 

1 



State of Florida 
Department of State 

I certify from the records of this office that TRINITY CARE SOLUTIONS, 

LLC, is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of 

Florida, filed on November 16. 2006. 

The document number of this company is L060001 11228. 

I further certify that said company has paid all fees due this office through 

December 31, 2013, that its most recent annual report was filed on April 26, 

2013, and its status is active. 

Given under my hand and the 

Great Seal of the State of Florida 
at Tallahassee, the Capital, this 

the Tenth day of October, 2013 

Secretary of St at e 

Authentication ID: CU2647465720 

To authenticate this certificate,visit the following site,enter this 

ID, and then follow the instructions displayed. 

https://efile.sunbiz.org/certaUthver.html 



7 

/ 
T

rinity C
are Solutions, L

L
C

 
A

uthorized to 
U

nits of Interest 

. 

O
ne 

H
undred 

U
nits of the above 

L
im

ited L
iability C

om
pany transferable only on the books of the L

im
ited 

C
om

pany by the holder hereof in person 
or by duly authorized A

ttorney upon surrender of this C
ert7jicate properly endorsed. T

ransfer of these U
nits is subject 

to restrictions in the O
perating A

greem
ent/C

om
pany A

greem
ent/R

egulations for this L
im

ited L
iability C

om
pany. 

T
he C

om
pany w

ill furnish w
ithout charge to each U

nit holder w
ho so requests, the 

designations, preferences 
and relative participation rights of U

nit holders and the qualifications, lim
itations or restrictions of such rights. 

O
R

G
A

N
tZ

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 T

H
E

 
LA

W
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 O
F

 F
LO

R
ID

A
 

100 

/ 
A

nn 
Franck 

is the ow
ner of 

In 
W

itn&
ss W

hereof the said L
im

ited L
iability C

om
pany has caused this 

to 
be signed 

its duly 
authorized M

em
ber('s)/M

anager('s) and to be sealed w
ith the Seal of the L

im
ited L

iability C
om

pany. 

D
ated 

=
 

I 



Name) 

700252719697 
(Address) 

(CitylStatefZip/Phone #) 

D PICK-UP WAIT MAIL 

—005 

(Business Entity Name) 

Number) 

Certified Copies 

_______ 

Certificates of Status_______ 

) 

Office Use Only 

OCT IA 



DEAN 
LAW F!RM LLC 

Timothy P.A. 
tim@deanfirm.com 

SUITE 300 
230 NE 25Th 
OCALA. FL 34470-7075 

TELEPHONE 352.3fl7.X700 
FACSIMILE 800.251.9424 

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS 

Florida Division of Corporations 
Attn: Amendments 
Clifton Building 
2661 Executive Center Circle 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

October 10, 2013 

Re: Trinity Care Solutions. LLC — Articles of Amendment 
Document No.: L060001 11228 

To Whom it may Concern: 

Enclosed please find the following: 

1.) Articles of Amendment to Articles of Organization of Trinity Solutions, 

LLC; 

2.) Check in the amount of 525.00, which represents payment for same. 

Please do not hesitate to call if you have any questions. 

Thank you in advance for your courtesies. 

Sincerely yours. 

DEAN LAW FIRM. LLC 

Enclosures as stated 

Legal Assistant 



ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT 
TO 

ARTICLES OF ORCANIZATION 
OF 

Trinity Care Solutions, LLC 
Name of the Limited Usbiluly Company as it now appears on our ) 

(A Florida Limited Liability Company) 

The Articles of Organization for this Limited Liability Company were filed on November16, 2006 and assigned 

Florida document number L060001 11228 

This amendment is submitted to amend the following: 

A. If amending name, enter the new name of the limited liability company : 
The new name must be distinguishable and end with the words "Limited Liability Company," the designation or the abbreviation 

Enter new principal offices address, if applicable: 

Principal office address MUST BE A STREET ) 1731 SW 2nd Avenue, Suite B 

Ocala,FL 34471 

Enter new mailing address, ii applicable: 

Mpili,:gjiddress MA I' BE A POST OFFICE ) 1731 Sw 2nd Avenue, Suite 

Ocata, FL 34471 

B_____________ 

B. if amending the registered agent andlor registered office address on our records, enter the name of the new 

refistered and/or the new registered office address : 
Name of New Registered Agent: 

New Registered Office : Ann Franck 

1731 SW 2nd Avenue, Suite B 

Ocala 
City 

Enter Florida street address 

Florida 34471 
Zip Code 

New Registered Agent's Signature. if changing Registered : 
I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. ifuri her agree to comply with 

the provisions of all stwues relative to the proper and complete pe,formancc of my duties, and I am familiar with and 
accept the obligations of my position as registered agent as provided for in Chap!' 608, F.S. Or. this document is 

being filed to merely reflect a change in the registered office address. I c firm the limited liability 

company has been notified in writing of this change. 

If Changing Registered Agent. Sianatu ew Reeistered A2ent 

Page L of3 



If amending the Managers or Managing Members on our records, enter the title, name, and address of each Manager 

or Member beina added or removed from our : 
MGR Manager 
MGRM = Managing Member 

Title Name Address Type of Action 

MGRM Paul W. Franck 202 SW i 7th Street 
U Add 

Ocala, FL 34471 V Remove 

MGRM Ann Franck 1731 SW 2nd Avenue, Suite B 
V Add 

Ocala, FL 34471 

_______________________________________________ 

Remove 

- ElAdd 

______________________________________________ 

- 

tIRemovc 

- 

________________________________________________ 

I Remove 

- EAdd 

___________________________________________ 

El Remove 

Page 2 o13 



If amending aüy other information, enter change(s) here: (Attach additional sheets. 

Dated 
October 10 2013 

Signature of a member or authorized of a member 

Ann Franck 
Typed or printed name of signce 

Page 3 of 3 

Filing Fee: S25M0 



o 

) 
500252272455 

(Address) 

1 1 ul 1 'U 

(City/State/Zip/Phone 

0 PICK-UP WAIT MAIL 

(Business Entity Name) 

• Number) 

Certified Copies_____ Certificates of Status_____ 

Special Instructions to Filing Officer: 

.-' 

—4 

t) 
Office Use Only 



Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve The health 

______________ 

of aD Pea In FiofldaThroUgh integrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State Surgeon General & Secretaiy 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 24, 2014 

Douglas N Kassan 
201 

th Street S. Apt #10 
St. Petersburg, FL 33701 

RE: Request for Termination of Probation 

Dear Mr. Kassan: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 am. 

You are not required to appear; however, it is encouraged that you do so. Issues are heard in the 
order they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be 
heard. Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting . html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Sincerely, 

Jay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy ITTER:HealttiyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 'Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Final Order No. $ -M A 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

FILED DATE 
of a! 

BOARD OF PHARMACY By: 

eputy Agency Clerk 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. Case No.: -42732 
License No.: PS 28503 

DOUGLAS NEIL KASSAN, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________________________I 

FINAL ORDER 

THIS MATTER came before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter "the Board") at a 

duly noticed public meeting on April 9, 2008, in Orlando, Florida. Petitioner filed an 

Administrative Complaint seeking disciplinary action against Respondent's license. A 

copy of the Administrative Complaint is attached to and made a part of this Final Order. 

Petitioner was represented by Billie Jo Owens. Respondent was present. 

Petitioner and Respondent have stipulated to a disposition in this case. The 

Board voted to adopt the Settlement Agreement as an appropriate settlement of the 

case. 

A copy of the Settlement Agreement is attached to and made a part of this Final 

Order. The agreed upon costs to be paid by Respondent are two thousand three 

hundred sixty-six dollars and ninety-six cents ($2,366.96). The costs shall be paid prior 

to Respondent filing a petition for reinstatement. 



IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Settlement Agreement is hereby 

adopted. 

This Final Order shall become effective upon filing with the Clerk of the 

Department of Health. 

DONE AND ORDERED this i'f day of , 2008. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IZtAAc,L/ it 
Rebecca R. Poston, R. Ph., Executive Director 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 
on behalf of Albert Garcia, R.Ph., Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been 

furnished by U.S. Mail to: Douglas Kassan, R.Ph., Suburban Lodge, Room 111, 6500 

Ulmerton Road, Largo, Florida 33771; by interoffice mail to Deborah B. Loucks, 

Assistant Attorney General, PL-01, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050; and 

Billie 0 Owens, Assistant General Counsel, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress 

Way, Bin C-65, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265, on 

______________________,2008. 

£&n 
2 &ZP>ncy Cterk 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. CASE NO. 2006-42732 

DOUGLAS NEIL KASSAN, RIPH., 

RESPONDENT. I 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through undersigned 

counsel, files this Administrative Complaint before, the Board of Pharmacy 

agahist Ph..ra.nd'In-suppot thereof— 

alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of pharmacy pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

2. Respondent is, and has been at all times pertinent to this 

Complahit, a licensed pharmacist pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes, 

having been issued license number PS 28503. 

J:\PSU\ANed HCathl\PharTnaCY\CJLSE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DUI\ac 06-42732.doc I 



3. Respondent's address of record is .O. Box 3238, St. 

Petersburg, Florida 33738-3238. The Department has information to 

believe Respondent may be living at 1417 Reynard Drive, Ft. Myers, Florida, 

33919. 

4. On or about May 4, 2006, Respondent was involved in a single 

automobile accident in Sarasota County, Florida and found to be exhibiting 

the indicia of. being under the influence of alcohol or/and a controlled 

substance. 

5. On or about May 4, 2006, Respondent was found to be in 

possession of a controlled substance, Alprazolam without a lawful 

prescription. 

6. Aprazolam is a controlled substance ii under Chapter 893, 

Florida Statutes. A substance listed in Schedule II has a potential for 

abuse less than the substances contained in Schedule I and II and has a 

currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Abuse of 

a Schedule HI substance may lead to moderate or low physical 

dependence or high psychological dependence. 

7. On or about August 20, 2007, in the Circuit Court, Sarasota 

County, in case No. 2006 CF 00822, Respondent entered a plea of guilty to 

the offense of I and Damage Property — a misdemeanor. 

.]:\PSU\AIiied HeaIth\Phar'macy\CAsE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 0642732 DUJ\ac06-42732.doc 2 



8. Respondent was adjudicated guilty on the allegation listed in 

paragraph 7 above. 

9. Section 465.015(13(f), Florida Statutes (2006), provides that 

having been convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication, in a court 

of this state or other jurisdiction, of a crime which directly relates to the 

ability practice pharmacy or to the practice of pharmacy, constitutes 

grounds for disciplinary action by the Board of Pharmacy. Entering a plea of 

guilty constitutes a conviction for purposes of Section 465.Ol6çij(f), Florida 

Statutes (2Q06). 

10. Sectián .016(1)(r), Florida Statutes (2006), provides that 
violating any provision of chapter 465, 456 Florida Statutes or any rules 

tht Qfl disciplinary athon by the 

Board of Pharmacy. 

11. Section 456.072( 1)(c), Florida Statutes (2006), provides that 

being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob 

contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which 

relates to the practice of or the ability to practice a licensee's profession, 

constitutes grounds for disdplina-y action by the Board of Pharmacy. 

& Number 2007\CASE & Number �0O7\Kassan 0642732 OUI\ac 324ac 3 



12. Driving while under the influence of alcohol or prescription 

medication is a crime directly related to the practice or to the ability to 

practice pharmacy. 

13. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

13(f), Florida Statutes (2006), by having been found guilty, 

regardless of adjudication, in a court of this state of a crime which iy 
relates to the ability to practice pharmacy or to the practice of pharmacy. 

14. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

.016(1)(r), Florida Statutes, (2006) by violating Section .072(1)(c), 
Florida Statutes (2006), by having been found guilty, regardless of 

adjudication, in a court of this state of a crime which directly relates to the 

aEiiity to practice pharmacy or to the practice of pharmacy. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Pharmacy enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of fees 

J:\PSLJ\AIIIed HeaIth\Pharmacy\rJSE & Number �007\cASE & Number 2007\Kassan 0612732 DUI\ac 4 



billed or collected, remedial education andjor any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this day of November, 2007. 

Ana N. Vianionte Ros, M.D., M.P.H. 
State Surgeon General -z 
Lynne A. QuimbyPennock 
Assistant General Counsel 

DEPARTMENT DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
CLERK t_j\_fl 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

CLERK: 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 

DATE . Florida Bar # 0394572 
850.245.4640 ext. 8160 
850.245.4682 FAX 

Pcp: 11.28.07 
• PCP Members: Garcia/Alvarez 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be reprEsented by counsel orother qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

J:\PSU\AIIiecJ Kealth\Pharmacy\c.ASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DUI\ac 06-42732.doc 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

VS. CASE NO. 2006-42732 

DOUGLAS N. KASSAN, R.PF-L, 

Respondent. 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, the above named 

parties hereby offer this Settlement Agreement to the Board of Pharmacy 

as disposition of the Administrative attached hereto as Exhibit 

A, in lieu of any other administrative proceedings. The terms herein 

become effective only if and when a Final Order accepting this Settlement 

Agreement is issued by the Board and filed. In considering this Settlement 

Agreement, the Board may review all investigative materials regarding this 

case. If this Settlement Agreement is rejected, it, and its presentation to 

the Board, shall not be used against either party. 

J:\PSU\Albed Health\Pharmacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 0642732 DUI\5A012408.doc 1 



STIPULATED FACTS 

1. For all times pertinent herein, Respondent was a licensed 

pharmacist in the State of Florida, having been issued license number PS 

28503. Respondent's address of record is P.O. Box 3238, St. Petersburg, 

Florida 33738-3238. 

2. Respondent was charged by an Administrative Complaint filed 

by the Department and properly served upon Respondent with violations of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes. 

3. Respondent neither admits the factual allegations contained in 

the Administrative Complaint for the purposes of settlement in these 

administrative proceedings only. 

STIPULATED LAW 

1. Respondent admits that he is subject to the provisions of 

Chapters 456 and 465, Florida Statutes, and the jurisdiction of the 

Department of•Health and the Board. 

2. Respondent admits that the stipulated facts, if proven true, 

constitute violations of law as alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

PROPOSED DISPOSITION 
Li:\PSU\AIIied & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DLJI\SA01240&doc 2 



1. Respondent shall be present when this Settlement Agreement 

• is presented to the Board and under oath shaH answer all questions asked 

by the Board concerning this case and the disposition thereof. 

2. The Board of Pharmacy shall impose the administrative costs 

associated with the investigation and prosecution of this matter in an 

amount not to exceed THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00). Total 

costs shall be assessed when the Settlement Agreement is presented to the 

Board. The costs are to be paid by Respondent to the Department of 

Health, Compliance Management Unit, Pharmacy Compliance 

Officer, .O. 6320, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-6320, payable prior 

to presentation of Petition for Reinstatement. 

3. Respondent shall successfully complete a continuing education 

course on the laws and rules governing the practice of pharmacy in Florida 

that is not shorter than twelve (12) hours in length, within one (1) year of 

entry of the Final Order accepting and adopting this Settlement Agreement 

he shall successfully complete the Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence 

Examination (Florida version) within ONE (1) year of entry of the Final 

Order accepting and adopting this Settlement Agreement. These 

continuing education hours shall be in addition to the hours required for 
J:\PSIJ\AiIied Health\Pharmacy\CASE & Number & Number 2007\Kassan 0642732 DUI\5A012408.doc 3 



license renewal. Within ten (10) days of completion of the course(s) and/or 

receipt of the certificate(s) of completion, Respondent shall mail a copy of 

the continuing education certificate(s) of completion to the Pharmacy 

Compliance Officer at the address listed in paragraph two (2) above. 

Respondent shall provide documentation of successful passage of the 

examination within ten (10) days of receipt of the score. Such 

documentation shall be provided to the Medical Quality 

Assurance/Compliance Management Unit, Compliance Officer, Board of 

Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin COl, Tallahassee, Florida 32399- 

3251. 

4. Respondent shall enter and successfully participate in a 

Professionals Resource Network (PRN) evaluation, treatment, and 

monitoring contract the terms and provisions of which shall be determined 

by PRN. Respondent shall comply with all requirements and 

recommendations of PRN. 

5. Respondent's license shall be suspended until such time as 

Respondent petitions and appears before the Board to demonstrate his 

ability to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety to patients and 

shall provide a practice plan detailing his pharmaceutical employment 
J:\PSU\AIIied Health\Ptiarrnacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DUI\5A012408.doc 4 



intentions for the Board's approval. Such demonstration shall include an 

evaluation by a Board approved treatment provider and Respondent shall 

answer any questions asked by the Board. Such practice plan shall include 

the location of Respondent's intended practice, the type of practice, the 

number of employees (both professional and support), supervision 

delineations, and protocol for the handling of controlled substances. Said 

petition may be filed to be heard at the same time as the settlement 

agreement is presented, but may also be filed at a later time. 

6. Upon reinstatement of his license to practice as a pharmacist, 

Respondent's license shall be placed on probation for a period of not less 

than ten (10) years. During the period of probation, Respondent shall be 

subject to the following terms and conditions: 

a. Respondent shall not work at more than two (2) pharmacies 

without prior written authorization from the Board. 

b. Respondent shall submit written reports to the Compliance Officer 

for the Board of Pharmacy that contain licensee's name, licensee's 

license number, current address, and phone number; current 

name, address, and phone number of each pharmacy at which 

Respondent is engaged in the practice of pharmacy; the names of 
J:\PSU\ALIied Health\Pharrnacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DUI\SA01240&doc 5 



all pharmacists, pharmacy interns, pharmacy technicians, relief 

pharmacists, and prescription department managers working with 

Respondent. If Respondent works for a placement agency, 

Respondent's report shall include: the name, address and 

telephone number of the placement agency and list the 

pharmacies, including addresses and dates that Respondent 

worked at each pharmacy, and the name of the supervising or 

primary pharmacist. These reports shall be submitted to the 

Compliance Officer every three (3) months in a manner as 

directed by the Compliance Officer. 

c. Respondent shall submit documentation evidencing that his 

employer, or if employed as a relief or agency pharmacist, his 

supervising pharmacist(s) and the relief agency, have been 

• provided with a copy of the Final Order describing these 

probationary terms within ten (10) days of the entry of the Final 

• Order or upon initiation of employment. 

d. Respondent shall ensure that his employer, or the supervising 

pharmacist at each pharmacy at which Respondent works, submits 

• written reports to the Compliance Officer for the Board of 
J:\PSU\AIUed Health\Pharnacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 0642732 6 



Pharmacy. If Respondent is employed by an agency, the written 

reports must be submitted by the supervising pharmacist at each 

pharmacy at which Respondent works. These reports shall 

contain: the name, current address, license number, and 

telephone number of each pharmacy intern, pharmacy technician, 

relief pharmacist, and prescription department manager working 

with Respondent in the prescription department; a brief 

description of Respondent's duties and responsibilities; and 

Respondent's work schedule. These reports shall be submitted by 

the employer to the Compliance Officer (3) months in 

a manner directed by the Department Compliance Officer. 

e. The Department shall conduct semi-annual audits of five 

randomly selected controlled substances. The Department's costs 

and expenses for the audits shall be paid by Respondent in the 

manner directed by the Department. 

1. The Department shall conduct semi-annual inspections of 

Respondent's place(s) of employment, at Respondent's cost. 

g. Respondent shall not work as a prescription department manager 

in any Florida licensed pharmacy. 
J;\PSU\AJLied & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DL.J1\SA012408.doc 7 



h. If Respondent leaves the State of Florida for a period of thirty (30) 

days or more, if PRN withdraws Respondent from the practice of 

pharmacy, or if Respondent ceases the professional practice of 

pharmacy in the State, Respondent's probation shall be tolled until 

such time as Respondent returns to the active, professional 

practice of pharmacy in the State of Florida. The professional 

practice of pharmacy, for purposes of this settlement agreement 

only, shall mean working in a licensed pharmacy setting for not 

less than thirty-five (35) hours a week. 

i. Respondent shall comply with any and all requirements and 

recommendations of PRN. 

j. During the last three (3) months of the probationary period, 

Respondent shaM petition and appear before the Board of 

Pharmacy requesting termination of probation. The Board 

reserves the right to impose additional conditions or restrictions or 

extend Respondent's probationary period if deemed appropriate at 

that time. 

7. In the future, Respondent shall not violate Chapter 456, 465, 

499, and/or893, Florida Statutes, the rules promulgated pursuant thereto, 
J:\PSU\AIlied Health\Pharmacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 0642732 DUASAO124O8.doc 8 



or any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice 

or to the ability to practice pharmacy. 

8. It is expressly understood that a violation of the terms of this 

Settlement Agreement shall be considered a violation of a Final Order of 

the Board of Pharmacy for which disciplinary action may be initiated 

pursuant to Chapter 465, Florida Statutes. 

9. It is expressly understood that this Settlement Agreement is 

subject to approval by the Board and Department and has no force or 

effect until the Board bases an Order upon it. 

10. This Settlement Agreement is executed by Respondent for the 

purpose of avoiding further administrative action with respect to this 

particular cause. En this regard, Respondent authoriths the Board to 

review and examine all investigative file materials concerning Respondent 

prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of the Settlement Agreement. 

Petitioner and Respondent agree to support this Settlement Agreement at 

the time it is presented to the Board and shall offer no evidence, 

testimony, or argument that disputes or contravenes any stipulated fad or 

conclusion of law. Furthermore, should this Settlement Agreement not be 

accepted by the Board, it is agreed that the presentation and consideration 
.1:\PSU\AIIied flealth\Pharmacy\CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42732 DUI\SAOl24DBMoc 9 



of this Settlement Agreement and other documents and matters by the 

Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice the Board or any of its 

members from further participation, consideration, or resolution of these 

proceedings. 

11. Respondent and the Department fully understand that this 

Settlement Agreement and subsequent Final Order incorporating same will 

not preclude additional proceedings by the Board and/or Department 

against Respondent for acts or omissions not specifically set forth in the 

Administrative Complaint, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

12. Respondent waives the• right to seek any attorney's fees or 

costs from the Department in connection with this disciplinary proceeding. 

13. waives aH rights to appeal and further review of 

this Settlement Agreement and these proceedings. 

WHEREFORE, the parties hereby request that the Board enter a Final 

Order accepting, adopting, and implementing the terms contained herein. 

SIGNED this I day of 

______________________, 

2008. 

KASSAN, RPM. 
CASE NO. 2006-42732 

J:\PSU\ACIied \CASE & Number 2007\CASE & Number 2007\Kassan 06 42 
Florida 

ComriEsion#0D540110 
My co 



STATE 

___________ 

COUNTYOF 

Before me personally appeared Douglas Kassan, whose identity is 
knowA to me or by ) (type of ion), and who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature 
appears above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this Qj day 2008. 

i /&\ State i Florida 

L U t;optrnintoni 00585908 
expIres Oct. 2010 

Ana M. Viamonte Ros, M.D., 
State Surgeon General ti 

Conoset for : 
Billie Jo Owens 
Florida Bar No. 0211958 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FlorIda 32399 
850.245.4640 
850.245.4682 fax 

0 Owens, - 

General Counsel 

3:\PSLIWHed & N'nbw & Number 1W 42132 . 

TOTflL P.ei 

FEB—21-20a8 :26 
P. 01/01 

My Commission Expires: 'ii' C) 

APPROVED this of rca'ra 2008. 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

STATE OF FLORIDA CLERK Angel Sanders 
BOARD OF PHARMACY DATE SEP1 2 2012 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. Case No.: 2006-42732 
License No.: PS 28503 

DOUGLAS N. KASSAN, R.PH., 

Respondent. 

___________________________________________________________/ 

ORDER APPROVING REQUEST TO MODIFY FINAL ORDER 

THIS MATTER came before the Board of Pharmacy (Board) at the duly-noticed 

meeting on August 15, 2012 in Tallahassee, Florida, upon Respondent's request to modify the 

final order to allow Respondent to work as a Prescription Department Manager. Petitioner was 

present. The Board voted to approve the request. 

THEREFORE, Respondent's Final Order is amended to allow Respondent to work as a 

Prescription Department Manager. No other terms of the Final Order were changed. 

This order shall be placed in and become a part of Respondent's official records and shall 

become effective upon filing with the Clerk of the Department of Health. 

DONE and ORDERED, this of Sc , 2012. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Mk Whitten, Executive Director for 
Qynthia Griffin, PharmD, Chair 





FILED 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
CLERK Angel Sanders 
DATE AUG 2 5 ZOll 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. DOH CASE NO.: 2006-42732 
LICENSE NO.': PS 28503 

DOUGLAS KASSAN, RPH, 

Respondent. 

___________________________________________________________/ 

ORDER DENYING REQUEST FOR MODIFICATION OF PROBATION 

This matter dame before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the "Board") at a duly 

noticed public meeting held on August 3, 2011 in Orlando, Florida, pursuant to the Respondent's 

request for modification of probation. The Respondent was not present. 

Upon consideration of Respondent's request, the arguments of the parties, and being 

otherwise advised in the premises, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Respondent's request to modify 

probation is DENIED. 

This Order shall take effect upon bei,filed with the Clerk of the Department of Health. 

DONE AND ORDERED this day of , 2011. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Mar)'c.Vhitten, Executive Directorfor 
Cafl "Fritz" Hayes, BPharm, Chair 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by 

Certified Mail to Douglas Kassan, R.Ph.; by interoffice mail to Allison Dudley, Assistant 

Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General, PL-0 1, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 

32399-1050; ,2011. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 

7011 1150 0001 4539 9140 



Page 1 of 1 

Nelson, Sondra 

From: Collins, Tammy 

Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2013 7:29 PM 

To: Nelson, Sondra 

Cc: Cumbie, James A 

Subject: FW: Contact via Florida 
I 
Board of Pharmacy - Appearance befor the Board Request 

Hi Sondra, 

Would you please let Mr. Kassan know what he needs to do to be presented to the Board in February? We need 
his file by December 20, 2013 to meet the agenda deadline. 

Thank you so much! :) 

Tammy Collins, CPM 
Acting Executive Director 
Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
Direct line (850) 245-4614 
Reception area (850) 245-4292 
Direct Fax (850) 413-6982 

From: Douglas N Kassan mailto:dnkassan@outlook.com] 
Sent: Sunday, November 17, 2013 12:01 PM 

To: info@floridaspharmacy.gov 
Subject: Contact via Florida 

I 
Board of Pharmacy - Appearance befor the Board Request 

From: 
Douglas N Kassan - dnkassan@outlook.com 

Subject: Appearance befor the Board Request 

Message Body: 
At the last board meeting I attended in August 2012, I was instructed to request an appearance 
before the Board 3 months prior to the ending of my PRN contract. My contract ends in April 
2014. Is there any procedures I should follow, in addition to this request, to appear before the 
Board at next scheduled meeting available? thank you, Douglas Kassan PS28503 7276562403 

Send a Reply > 

This mail is sent via the Contact Form on Florida Board of Pharmacy 

12/19/20 13 



Douglas Neil Kassan RPh. 
Case # 2006-42732 

201 5THSTS,APT1O 
SAiNT PETERSBURG, FL 33701 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT TEAM 
ATTN: SONDRA NELSON-ALLEN4 
PHARMACIST COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, BINC76 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399 

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION 

RX SPECIALTY PHARMACY/PHARMETRICS 
11880 28TH STN, SUITE 100 
SAiNT PETERSBURG, FL 33716 
727-302-8135 

EMPLOYMENT STATUS: FULL-TIME 
COMPOUNDING PHARMACY NON-STEPJLE PREPARATIONS 

LOCATION IS THE SAME BUILDING WHERE THE NEW PHARMACY HAS BEEN OPENED 
ON FIRST FLOOR. 

ASSOCIATES INCLUDE: 

KERRY B. EARLYWINE, PHARMACIST-IN-CHARGE LICENSE PS50127 
DEAN A. PEDALINO, SENIOR PHARMACIST LICENSE PS 19523 
FREDDY PAGAN, PHARMACY TECHNICIAN LICENSE RPT29469 
NICHOLE JONES, PHARMACY TECHNICIAN LICENSE RPT25900 
KARLA BENNTT, PHARMACY TECHNICIAN LICENSE RPT25724 

THE NOVEMBER MONITORISUPERVISR REPORT ALONG WITH SELF-REPORT WILL BE 
SUBMITTED FOR BOTH INFUSERVE AND PHARMETRICS TO COVER EMPLOYMENT 
PERIOD. 

Best regards, 

DOUGLAS NEIL KASSAN RPH 
CASE 3 2006-423 76 
PH: 727-656-2403 



PHARMACIST: DOUGLAS N. I CASSAN RPh. 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT TEAM 
ATIN: SONDRA NELSON-ALLEN 
PHARMACIST COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, BIN C76 , FL 32399 

SELF REPORT FOR NOVEMBER 2013 

1) DOUGLAS NEIL KASSAN iCENSE PS 28503 
2) 201 5TH ST S APT 10 NT PETERSBURG, FL 01 
3) LICENSE IS ON PROBATION # 2006-4273 2 
4) PRACTICE LOCATION: 11880 28TH ST N, STE 100, PETERSBURG. FL 33716 
5) CURRENT PRACTICE: PHARMACY, TOPICALS 
6) COMPLIANCE WITH PROBATION TERMS: YES 
7) MONITOR/PHARMACY SUPERVISOR 
8) NO PROBLEMS 
9) CHART REVIEWS; N/A 

PHARMETRICS SPECIALTY RX, LLC 

PHARMACISTS: 
DEAN A. PEDALINO PS 11034 
KERRY B. EARLYWINE O 127 

PHARMACY TECHNICIAN: FREDDY PAGAN RPT29469 
PHARMACY TECHNICIAN: KARLA M. BENNETT RPT25724 
PHARMACY TECHNICIAN: EDA L. STEINBECK RPT46653 

DATES OF EMPLOYMENT - 

NOVEMBER 4, 2013 - CURRENT 

Th 
) 

SIGNED: DOUGLAS N KASSAN PS28503 

TPRAWiLUS 

MY # EE 

FebifiafY 9, 2017 

Bonded mm NothIy Pubhc Und&WPtetO 



PHARMACIST: DOUGLAS N. I ASSAN RPh. 

FLORIDA DEPARTMFNT OF HEALTH 
COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT TEAM 
ATTN: SONDRA NELSON-ALLEN 
PHARMACIST COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, BIN C76 
TALLAHASSEE. FL 32399 

SELF REPORT FOR NOVEMBER 2013 

1) DOUGLAS NEIL KAS SAN LICENSE PS 28503 
2) 201 5THSTS APT1O NTPETERSBURG,FL33501 
3) LICENSE IS ON PROBATION fi 2006-4273 2 
4) PRACTICE LOCATION: 11880 28TH ST N, STE 200, T PETERSBURG, FL 33716 
5) CURRENT PRACTICE: PHARMACY INFUSION/PAR ENTERAL/ENTERAL 
6) COMPLIANCE WITH PROBATION TERMS: YES 
7) MONITOR/PHARMACY SUPERVISOR 
8) NO PROBLEMS 
9) CHART REVIEWS; N/A 

INFUSERVE AMERICA INC 

PHARMACISTS: 
DAVID KAZARIAN PSI 1034 and PU 
NANCY KAZARIAN PS11035 and PU1991 
RANDOLPH BRETON PS27126 and 

PU F350 

PHARMACY TECHNICIAN: ALICIA HAZELTON RPT46916 
PHARMACY TECHNICIAN: TARA WILLIS RPT34876 
PHARMACY TECHNICIAN: ALMA MENENDEZ-RODRI SUEZ RPT34875 

DATES OF EMPLOYMENT - 
JUNE 5, 2013—NOVEMBER 1,2013 

SIGNED: DOUGLAS N KASSAN PS28503 



INFUSERVE AMERICA INC. 
11880 28TH STREET NORTH, SUITE 200 

SAINT PETERSBURG, FL 3371 
(727) 373-7847 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT TEAM 
ATTN: SONDRA NELSON-ALLEN 
PHARMACIST COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, BIN C76 
TALLAHASSEE. FL 32399 

MONITOR/SUPERVISOR REPORT FOR DOUGLAS NEIL NOVEMER 2013 

1) LICENSE CASE fi 2006-42732 
2) PRACTICE LOCATION: 11880 28TH ST N, STE 200, ST PE'I ERSBURG, FL 33716 
3) PRACTICE: PHARMACY. INFUSION/PARENTERAL/ENTE RAL 
4) COMPLIANCE: QUARTERLY REPORT 
5) MONITOR/PHARMACY SUPERVISOR 
6) PROBLEMS: N/A 
7) CHART REVIEWS: N/A 
8) DATE OF CHART REVIEWS: N/A 
9) NUMBER OF CHART REVIEWS: N/A 

PHARMACY MONITOR/SUPERVISOR: 

ANTHONY L WOLFINBARGER RP1i, CPh. Pharmacist-in-Charge 
email: anthony@infnserveamerica.com 

SIGNED: ANTHONY L WOLFINBARGER 

TARA WILLIS 

MY COMMISSION EE 352&19 

EXPIRES: February 9, 2037 
Bonded Thru Notary Public 





 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


Rick Scott Mission: 
Governor 

To protect, promote & improve the health 

______________ 

of all People l Fknda through uitegrated 
John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

HEALTH State General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

January 24, 2014 

Michael Shane Miller 
189 Hilton Road 
Gate City, VA 24251 

RE: Request for Board Appearance 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are required to appear per Board order. Issues are heard in the order they are listed on the 
agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. Our office will follow up 
in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

ay Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
PHONE: 85012454292 • FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK Angel Sanders 

STATE OF FLORIDA DATE APR 3 0 2013 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IN RE: THE APPLICATION OF 

MICHAEL SHANE MILLER 

__________________________________________________________/ 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPROVE LICENSE ON CONDITIONS 

This matter appeared before the Board of Pharmacy at a duly-noticed public meeting held 

on April 3, 2013, in St. Petersburg, Florida, for consideration of an application for a license as a 

pharmacist by endorsement. The applicant was present. Upon consideration of the information 

provided, and being otherwise advised in the premises, the Board has determined that the 

application for a license as a pharmacist is conditionally approved with the following conditions 

and restrictions on licensure: 

1. Applicant is entitled to take the pharmacy jurisprudence examination. 

2. Upon successful completion of the jurisprudence examination, the applicant's 

license will be issued by the department one year from the effective date of this order if the 

applicant does not receive any further discipline in any other jurisdiction for all health licenses 

the applicant holds and the applicant must take a 12 hour laws and rules continuing education 

course which has been approved by the board. The applicant must appear before the Board 

before issuance of license to establish all conditions have been met. 

3. If the applicant receives any other discipline in any other jurisdiction or does not 

complete the laws and rules course, the application for license as a pharmacist is denied. 

4. The Board proposes these restrictions or conditions for the following reasons: 





A PETITION FOR A HEARING INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 
FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.201, FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, INCLUDING A STATEMENT OF ALL DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT. THE BOARD MAY REFER A PETITION TO THE DIVISION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS FOR ASSIGNMENT OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW 
JUDGE ONLY IF THE PETITION IS IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULE 
REQUIREMENTS. A PETITION FOR A PROCEEDING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 
ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 
28.106.301 FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, INCLUDING A CONCISE STATEMENT 
OF THE ULTIMATE FACTS ALLEGED, AS WELL AS THE RULES AND STATUTES 
WHICH ENTITLE PETITIONER TO RELIEF. 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 120.573, FLORIDA STATUTES MEDIATION IS NOT 
AVAILABLE. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by 

Certified Mail to Michael Shane Miller at 189 Hilton Road, Gate City, VA 24251; by electronic 

mail to David D. Flynn, Assistant Attorney General, david.flynn@myflorjdalegal.com Office of 

the Attorney General, PL-01, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050; day of Oçn 
,2013. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 
7004 0750 0004 

WI Th I 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 1) 

Mthi 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY 

EDUCATION CREDIT 

NAME University of Florida College of Pharmacy TITLE Pharmacy Laws and Rules Course 

ACPE ID. 0012-9999-1 2-223-H03-P/T, 20-358686 (A) DATE 8/26/2013 
UNIV. PROG. NO; 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDiT INFORMATION 
CREDITS ISSUED: 1.2 CELl NAME Shane Miller 

ADDRESS 189 Hilton Road 

DATE 8/26/2013 CITY.STATE,ZIP Gate City VA 24251 .. 

AUTHORIZED 
LICENSE NO. (S} SIGNATURE f 

OR 12 CONTACT HOURS 



Rick Scott 
Mission: Governor 
To protect, promote & improve the health 

__________— 

of at 
- John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 

H EALTH State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

March 13, 2013 

Michael Shane Miller 
189 Hilton Road 
Gate City, VA 24251 

RE: Application for Licensure by Endorsement 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, April 3,2013. The meeting is being held at the Hilton Hotel Carillon Park 
950 Lake Carillon Drive, St Petersburg, FL 33716, (727) 540-0050. The meeting will begin at 8:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting .html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4614. 

Sincerely 

- Progr m Operations Administrator 

Florida Department of Health www.FloridasHealth.com 
Board of Pharmacy TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentotHealth 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 FAX 850/413-6982 YOUTUBE: fldoh 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 25) 

12/19/2012 295.00 
ID: 42766 Type: F 

FIT: 3010900 

VL: 912033336 

Please Drint or tvDe leaiblv. 
1. Data -. 
Last Name First Name Middle Name 

Street Address (ML — Mailing Address) City State - Zip 

NTLTDN 
Work Address (PL — Practice City 

V4 
State Zip 

7(0 
Home Phone Number 

O4-LTcThJ 
Business Phone Number E-Mail Address 

- LfqL4 - //2 
Date of Birth Place of Birth 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask furnish the following information as part of your 
voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 
43FR 38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 
does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 
SEX: 0 Female 
RACE: 0 Btack OHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 
3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the changes below. Use a 
separate sheet, if necessary. 

Yes No 

NAME DATE 

4. Name of university, college or school attended: 

c:;—( — 1- IL 
5. Date 9f Gradyation / 6. Type 9f Earned 7. Have you ever been licensed as an 

/ intern in Florida? 

Yes 

Intern License Number: —________ 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of 6 

'I 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF FLORIDA BOARD OF 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tallah 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 
www.doh.state.fl.us/mc 

ITEM #2 — PHARMACIST ENDORSEMENT 
FEE: $295.00 



(Page 3 of 25) 

U 

8. Please indicate the date you successfully completed the NAPLEX . 
Date 

9. Would you be willing to provide health services in special needs shelters or to help staff disaster 
medical assistance teams during times of emergency or major ? 
Yes )c2 No 

10. Method of application - Please select one of the methods of application listed below; you must submit 
proof that the you choose has been met. 

______ 

A. Two years of active practice within two (2) of the last five (5) years. 

B. Successful completion of an internship within the immediately preceding two (2) years. 

PLEASE NOTE: If you have been licensed in another state in excess of 2 years from the date of your 
application you must choose A and have completed 30 hours of continuing education in the previous two (2) 
calendar years. If you choose "B" your internship date will be determined by the Board based on your 
graduation date, unless the state board of pharmacy where your hours were earned submits the certification of 
intern hours earned in that state within the orecedina two (2) years. 
11. List two years work experience if you are applying under IOA Note: you must submit .) 
Internship or Work Experience Form — Form B (Item #4) for each employer listed below. Use a 

separate sheet, if necessary. List experience if you are applying under lOB. —_________ 
Dates Employer Location Intern Or Pharmacy Total Hours 

Experience 

— 

2 List all in which you have been licensed as a pharmacist Nbte: you must submit one 
(1) Licensure Verification Form (Item #5) for listed lnw Use a separate sheet, if necessary. 
State or U.S. Jurisdiction License Number Date Issued 

cw £ 

13. Special Testing Accommodations — please indicate if you require special testing accommodations due 
to a disability, or if you have a religious conflict with the scheduled examination date. If yes, complete the 
Request for an Application for Testing Accommodations (item #6) and submit it to Testing Services. 
You may also contact Services by telephone (850) 245-4252 for detailed information and an . All requests must be made in writing and include . 
Yes NofX' 
14. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob contendre, or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 
Yes No 
(You must include all misdemeanors and ii adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record 
of conviction. Driving under the influence dF driving while impaired is NOT a minor traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26.205, F.A.C. 

Page 3 of 6 



(page 4 of 25) 

I.: 

Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacist or any other professional license 

in t his state or any other state o r U.S. jurisdiction? 

Yes No 

20. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another 

jurisdiction when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes No 

21. Are you presently being investigated or is any disciplinary action pending against 

you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 

817, F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and 

control) or a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If no, do not answer 23 ) 
Yes 

23. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from 

the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes 

23a. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 

felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes 

23b. If "yes" to 22, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has 

it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes 

23c. If "yes" to 22, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 

the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 

documentation). 

Yes 

24. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 U.S.C. ss. 

1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ Nc,X? 
24a. If "yes" to 24, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the sentence 

and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended? 

Yes No/ct? 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 Page 5 of 6 
Rute 64B16-26.205. F.A.C. 



(Page 6 of 25) 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If - 
you answer "yes" to any questions in 16-26, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit 
a certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or 
all if applicable. 

Section 456.01 3(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change 
in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of the application and 
the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 

basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations they deem appropriate 
and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have 
or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board or any municipal, county, 
state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a 

pharmacist's license may be or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, 
connection with an application for a license or p rmit, as set forth in section 456.01 5(2)(a), 

F 

Date 
NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

DH-MQA 100, 02/09 
Rule 64316-26.205, FAG. 

Page 6 of 6 

Yes 

25. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no,. do not answer 25b.) No_ 
Yes 

25b. If you have been terminared but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

Yes 

26. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 
state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 26a and 

No 
26a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program 
for the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

26b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this ? 
Yes No 

Yes______ 

26. Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? (If "yes", please provide official 

Yes______ 

27. If "yes" to any of the questions 22 through 26 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were yOU enrolled 
in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking licensure that was 
recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of Health? (If "yes", please provide 
official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 



(Page 9 of 25) 

10/2/2012 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way C-04 
TaUahassee, FL 32399-3254 

In response to item #12 of the Offical Application for L.icensure, please find my current license 

status as: 

1) Virginia, license # 10416, issued 6/1 991 

2) West Virginia, license # RP0007883, issued 6/21/12 

3) Tennessee, license #10287, issued 11/1999 

4) Georgia, license # RPH026452, issued 2/27/2012 

5) Kentucky, license #015861, issued 03/20/2012 



FLORIDABOARDOF PHARMACY 

4052 Bald Cypress Way. Bin C-04 • Taflahassee, FL - 254 ]I'Iiil Phone: (850) 245-4292 

)1 (p(, ITEM #3- CERTIFICATE OF PHARMACY EDUCATION (FORM A) 

legibly. 

. —To be completed by applicant and forwarded to the College of Pharmacy for 

I Part It 

be — 

of of 
ri F / 

LMa 

____— 

Date Dates 

From: 
To: iti!!J ! 

The informatiOn recorded above is true and correct according to the official records of this institution. 

in processing the applicants application. 
Failure to include the school seal may resuLt in 

Print Name 
Signature 

— (SCHOOL 
SEAL) 

Ie Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE; 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 

4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
tiC-04 

TALLAHASSEE FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA 101, ogiog 
Rule F.A.C. 

Page 7 of 9 

ZC P0 

(Page 2 of 9) 

Maiden_name!5urflame 

Li iôi'J 

First name 

_____ _____- 

Date of qraduatiOfl 

Middle name /f 



(Page 4 of 9) 

Ot 

15 REC'U 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • FL 323g9-3254 

I{EAIJT'}II Phone: (850) 245-4292 

ITEM #4 - INTERNSHIP OR EXPERIENCE FORM B) 

Please orint or tvøe loqibly. 

Applicant Name 

- Street Address 
. 

IntornlPha rmaci st License Number c) 
City 

Phone Number 

State 

2. Have you submitted an application for the Florida Pharmacist Examination? if yes, please indicate . 

______________ 

LYaS 
Date 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER 

THE SUPERViSION OF: 

3. PharmaCy Information 

_______________ 

Supervising License Number 

Tw- 3 
erinlt Number 

- - 
StreetAkiress City State Zip 

Va. 
Phone Numbdr 4. Dates of i'ence 
- q 4 From: To: 

S Average number of hours per week - 6. Total hours of experience - 

I-f 4/c'aec/ . 

por week if you are a student and no more than 60 after graduation is allowed)J 

Applicant's Date 

This report is a correct statement of fact. The above Information Wa:, taken from the records of the above 

named pharmacy and are available for inspoction by the Board of Pharmacy. 

/i,d%V'— 0 - 
- 

Preceptor/SuperviSOrs Signature Date 

NOTE: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 

PLEASE RETURN THiS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARWACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C.04 

FL 32399-3254 

OH-MQA 02)09 Page 1 at' 1 

64B16-26205. F.A,C. 

- 



(Page 10 of 25) 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENF OF FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 
Phone: (850) 245-4292 • www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

ITEM #4—INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE FORM (FORM B) 

Please print or type legibly. 

A_ppiicant Name lnternlPharmacist License Number Phone Number 

/fl. 
Street Address City State Zip 

1101 (i'fv 

I I 

I HEREBY APPLY FOR INTERNSHIP OR WORK EXPERIENCE CREDIT AS OUTLINED BELOW UNDER 
THE SUPERVISION OF: 

Supervising Pharmacist's Name License Number 

Y). 
Pharmacy Name Permit Number 

Oc02G/ 
Street Address ( City State Zip 

/7/v 
Phone Number / 

4k 
4. Dates of Experience 

number of hours per week 6. Total hours of experience 

Applicar1't's Signature 
2 

Date / / 
statement or fact. The above information was taken from the records of the above 

are available for inspection by the Board of Pharmacy. 

PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM TO THE BOARD OFFICE: 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY 
BIN #C-04 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3254 

DH-MQA PHIOO, 02/09 
Rule 64B16-26205. F.A.C. 

Page 1 of 1 

1. information 

2. Have you submitted an application for the Florida Pharfnacist Examination? If yes, please indicate 
date. 

Yes No ( Date 

3. Pharmacy information 

jNo more 50 hours per week if you are a student and no more than 60 after is ) 
/ 

S Date 

E: Please check to be sure that you have answered all of the questions above. 



(Page 7 of 25> 

Ii 

10/02/2012 

Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way C-04 
Tallahassee FL 32399-3254 

Dear Sirs, 

In response to item # 16 of the Official Application for Licensure. please accept the following 

statement regarding disciplinary action taken against my license in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

From 1996 to 2000, I appeared twice in person before the Virginia Board of Pharmacy for failure 

to document the required 15 hours of annual CPE. On each occasion I received a monetary 

penalty and reprimand. In addition, for the second offense I received an 11 day suspension of my 

license to practice until adequate hard copies of my completed CPE were received and recorded 

by the Board. 

In addition, due to a peer complaint (not a patient or consumer complaint) I appeared before the 

Board in 2008 and 2010 to defend decisions made in the course of routine pharmacy practice. On 

both occasions I received a reprimand and monetary penalty for exceeding existing regulations in 

certain customer service decisions I made. I received praise from the Board committee for my 

commitment to my patients, but I was made to understand that no matter how pure the motive or 

how Christian the impulse to help a deserving individual, Board regulations are not to be ignored. 

Please see included Order from the Virginia Board as certification that all requirements of the 

Virginia Board have been met, and I am happy to report that my license to practice in Virginia 

remains active, clear and free of any restrictions. 

Sincerely. 

Shane Miller 



COMMONWEALTH of VIRQIN1A 

Sandra Whitley Ryats 
Department of Health Professions www.dhp virginlagoV 

ctor 
Perimeter Center 

TEL (804) 367- 4400 

e 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300 
FAX (804) 527- 4475 

Richmond, Virginia 23233-1463 

Board of Pharmacy 
804/367-4456 

804/527-4472 (fax) 

January 25, 2008 

Michael S. Miller 
CERTIFIED MAIL 

189 Hilton Road 
RETURN RECEWT REQUESTED 

Gate City, Virginia 2425T1 

NOTICE 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

This is official notification that an informal conference will be held before a Special 

Conference Committee ("Committee") of the Board of Pharmacy on February 21, 2008, at 1:00 p.m., 

at the Department of Health Professions, Perimeter Center, Commonwealth Conference Center, 

9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 201, Richmond, Virginia. You must sign in with your name and your 

arrival time to note your appearance. This sign-in sheet will be located on the security desk. 

The conferences will be held in the time order that you have recorded as present on the sign-in 

sheet. Please wait in the designated waiting room and you will be called once the Committee is 

ready to proceed with the Conference. If you have any additional documents to be presented on 

your behalf, please bring five (5) copies with you. 

In accordance with § 2.2-4019, 2.2-4021 and § 54.1-2400(10) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended ("Code"), this conference is being held to review allegations that you may have violated 

portions of the laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy in the Commonwealth of 

Virginia. More specifically, during the course of your employment at Food City Pharmacy #820, 

North Weber City, Virginia ("Food City"): 

1. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13), § 54.1-3410(B)(1) and § 54.1-3411(2) 

of the Code arid 18 VAC 110-20-320(A) of the Board of Pharmacy Regulations ("Regulations") in that 

on or about April 29, 2006, you refilled an expired prescription for hydrocodone/APAP 10/500 

(Schedule III). 

Board of Audiology & Speech — Language Pathology — Board of Counseling — Board of Dentistry — Board of Funeral Directors & Embalmers 

Board of Long-Term Care — Board of Medicine — Board of Nursing — Board of Optometry — Board of Pharmacy 

Board of Physical Therapy — Board of Psychology — Board of Social Work — Board of Veterinary Medicine 

Board of Health Professions 0202-01 0416 



M. Miller 

2. You may have violated 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13), § 54.1-3410(C) and § 54.1-3411(4) of 

the Code and 18 VAC 110-20-320(B) of the Regulations in that on or about April 22, 2006, you refilled 

three expired prescriptions for Lopressor (metoprolol tartrate), coichicine and Imdur (isosorbide 

mononitrate) (all Schedule VI) each with a 30-day supply. 

3. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7) and (13) and § 54.1-3410(D) of the Code in 

that between April 18, 2006, and May 1, 2006, you received oral prescriptions without making a 

written record of the full name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription. 

4. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7) and § 54.1-3410 of the Code and 18 VAC 

110-20-360(A) of the Regulations in that on or about April 26, 2006, you attempted to transfer a 

prescription for HCFZ from Broadwater Drug when there were no remaining refills left, 

5. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7) and § 54.1-3410 of the Code and 18 VAC 

110-20-360(B) of the Regulations in that between April 17, 2006, and May 3, 2006, you failed to 

properly record the required information on prescriptions when you transferred nine prescriptions 

from other pharmacies to Food City. 

The purpose of an informal conference is to allow the Committee, which consists of two 

members of the Virginia Board of Pharmacy, to inquire into, and discuss with you personally, 

these allegations. After reviewing the alleged violations with you, the Committee will make a 

decision regarding appropriate action. The Committee is authorized to take the following actions: 

1. If the Committee finds that there is insufficient evidence to warrant further action or that 

the charges are without foundation, they will so advise and further, you will be notified by mail 

that your record has been cleared of any charge that might affect your right to practice pharmacy 

in the Commonwealth; 
2. The Committee may place you on probation with such terms as it may deem appropriate; 

3. The Committee may reprimand you; 
4. The Committee may impose a monetary penalty pursuant to § 54.1-2401 of the Code; or 

5. The Committee may refer the case to the Board of Pharmacy or a panel thereof for a 

formal hearing. If the Committee is of the opinion that a suspension or revocation of your license 

may be justified, the Committee may offer you a consent order in lieu of a formal hearing. 

You have the right to information that will be relied upon by the Committee in making a 

decision. Therefore, I have enclosed a copy of the documents that will be distributed to the 

members of the Committee and will be considered by them when discussing the allegations with 

you and when deliberating upon your case. These documents are enclosed only with the 

original notice sent by certified mail and must be claimed at the post office. Relevant sections of 

the Administrative Process Act, which govern proceedings of this nature, as well as laws relating 

to the practice of pharmacy and other healing arts in Virginia cited in this notice can be found on 

the Internet at . To access this information, please click on the Code of 

Virginia for statutes and Virginia Administrative Code for regulations. 

0202-010416 



M. Miller 

In its deliberations, the Committee may use the Sanction Reference Points System, as 

contained in the Sanction Reference Manual. The manual, which is a guidance document of the 

Board, may be accessed at http://www.dhp.virginia.gOVlPharmacyL Please click on guidance 

documents, then select #110-21. You may also request a paper copy from the Board office at (804) 

367-4456, option #3. 

A request to continue this proceeding must be made in writing and directed to me at the 

address listed on this letter or it may be sent via facsimile transmission to 804/367-4456. Such 

request must be received by 5:00 p.m. on February 6, 2008. Only one such motion will be 

considered. Absent critical circumstances, such as personal or family illness, a request for a 

continuance after February 6, 2008, will not be considered. 

You may be represented by an attorney at the informal conference. If you obtain counsel, 

you should do so as soon as possible, as counsel may find it necessary to request a continuance 

due to their unavailability. Please have counsel forward a letter of representation to me at the 

above address or facsimile number. Requests must be received by February 6, 2008, to be 

considered by the Committee. After that date, such requests will be considered on the basis of 

whether a good faith effort to obtain counsel within this time parameter was attempted and that 

you were not successful. 

Please inform this office of your intention to appear at the conference at least ten (10) days 

prior to the scheduled date above. Should you fail to appear at the informal conference, the 

Committee may proceed in your absence. If you have any questions regarding this notice of 

informal conference or the procedures involved, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours truly, 

Cathy M. R niers-Day 
Deputy Executive Director 

Enclosures 
cc: David C. Kozera, Committee Chair 

Brandori K. Yi, Committee Member 
Myki D. Egan, DHP Adjudication Specialist 
Donald M. Jackson, DHP Senior Administrative Investigator (107188) 

0202-010416 



VIRGINIA: 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IN RE: MICHAEL S. MILLER, PHARMACIST 
License No.: 0202-010416 

ORDER 2 
Pursuant to § 2.24019, § 2.24021 and § 54.1-2400(10) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended ("Code"), a Special Conference Committee ("Committee") of the Virginia Board of 

Pharmacy ('Board"), composed f David C. Kozera, Pharmacist, and Brandon K. Yi, Pharmacist, 

met regarding Michael S. Miller on February 21, 2008, in Henrico County, Virginia. Mr. Miller 

appeared in person at the informal conference and was not represented by counsel. The purpose 

of the informal conference was to receive and act upon evidence concerning the allegations in the 

Notice of Informal Conference dated January 25, 2008. 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

After consideration of the evidence and statements concerning the allegations, the 

Committee makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law: 

1. Michael S. Miller holds license number 0202-010416 issued by the Board to practice 

pharmacy in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

2. During the course of Mr. Miller's employment as a pharmacist at Food City 

Pharmacy #820, North Weber City, Virginia: 

a. Mr. Miller violated § and (13), § -3410(B)(1) and § 54.1- 

3411(2) of the Code and 18 VAC 110-20-320(A) of the Board of Pharmacy Regulations 

("Regulations") in that on April 29, 2006, he refilled an expired prescription for 

hydrocodone/APAP 10/500 (Schedule III). 

b. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(7) and (13) and § 54.1-3410(D) of the Code in 

that between April 18, 2006, and May 1, 2006, he received oral prescriptions without 

making a written record of the full name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the 



M. Miller 

prescription. 

c. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(7) and § 54.1-3410 of the Code and 18 VAC 

110-20-360(8) of the Regulations in that between April 17, 2006, and May 3, 2006, he failed 

to properly record the required information on prescriptions when he transferred nine 

prescriptions from other pharmacies to Food City. 

ORDER 

WHEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is 

hereby ORDERED that Michael S. Miller be issued a REPRIMAND. Further, the Board ORDERS 

that Mr. Miller shall be assessed a monetary penalty of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) to be paid 

to the Board within ninety (90) days from the date this Order is final. If the monetary penalty is 

not received within the prescribed deadline, an additional One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) will be 

assessed weekly, up to a maximum of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00). Failure to pay the full 

fee plus the additional assessed penalty within thirty (30) days of the date the maximum penalty 

may be assessed shall constitute grounds for the suspension of the license of Mr. Miller, and an 

administrative proceeding will be convened to determine whether such license shall be 

suspended. 

Pursuant to § 2.24023 and § 54.1-2400.2 of the Code, the signed original of this Order shall 

remain in the custody of the Department of Health Professions as a public record and shall be 

made available for public release, inspection and copying upon request. 

Should Mr. Miller disagree with the Committee's decision, he may request a formal 

administrative hearing before the Board or a panel thereof, pursuant to § 54.1-2400(10) of the 

Code, not later than 5:00 p.m. on April 10, 2008, by notifying, in writing, Elizabeth Scott Russell, 

Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, Perimeter Center, 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300, 

Richmond, Virginia 23233. Upon the filing with the Executive Director for a request for a 

formal administrative hearing, this Order shall be vacated. 

2 



M. Miller 

Therefore, this Order shall become final on April 10, 2008, unless a request for a formal 

administrative hearing is received as described above. 

FOR THE BOARD: 

Ex 'ye Director 

ENTERED: March 7, 2008 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true copy of the foregoing Order was mailed to Michael S. Mifier at 

189 Hilton Road, Gate City, Virginia 24251, on this 7th day of March, 2008. 

Deputy Executive Director 

3 



VIRGINIA: 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IN RE: MICHAEL S. MILLER, PHARMACIST 
License No.: 0202-010416 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

Pursuant to § 2.2-4020, § 2.2-4021, § 54.1-110, and 54.1-2400(11) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended ("Code"), Michael S. Miller is hereby given notice that a formal administrative hearing will be 

held in the presence of a panel of the Board of Pharmacy ("Board"). The hearing will be held on March 9, 

2011, at 1:00 p.m., at the offices of the Department of Health Professions, Perimeter Center, 9960 Mayland 

Drive, Suite 201, Henrico, Virginia, at which lime Mr. Miller will be afforded the opportuiiity to be heard 

in person or by counsel. 

At the hearing, Mr. Miller has the following rights, among others: the right to representation by 

counsel, the right to have witnesses subpoenaed and to present witnesses on his behalf, the right to 

present documentary evidence and the right to cross-examine adverse witnesses. If Mr. Miller desires 

any witnesses to appear on his behalf, he must notify the Director of the Administrative Proceedings 

Division, Perimeter Center, 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300, Henrico, Virginia, 23233-1463, in accordance 

with the Instructions for Requesting . 
The purpose of the hearing is to receive and act upon evidence that Mr. Mifier may have violated 

certain laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy in Virginia, as more fully set forth in the 

Statement of Particulars below. 

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS 

The Board alleges that during the course of his employment as the pharmacist-in-charge of 

CVS/pharmacy #7343, Gate City, Virginia: 

1. Mr. Mifier may have violated § 54.1-3316(7), and § 54.1-3410.2(B) of the Code and 18 VAC 

110-20-270(C) and 18 VAC 110-20-321 of the Board of Pharmacy Regulations ("Regulations") in that, on 



M. Miller 

several occasions, he provided customers with at least four (4) expired doses of compounded phenergan 

(promethazine, Schedule VI). 

2. Mr. Miller may have violated § 54.1-3316(7) and § 54.1-3462(1) of the Code in that he mixed 

generic and brand name drugs in the same prescription bottle and mislabeled the bottle in that he did not 

indicate that both drugs were in the bottle. 

3. Mr. Miller may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7), § 54.1-3432 arid § 54.1-3434 of the Code 

and 18 VAC 110-20-190(C) of the Regulations in that, on or about February 19, 2010, as a result of art 

emergency, he left the premises without securing the pharmacy and leaving the pharmacy technicians 

unsupervised. 

4. Mr. Miller may haveviolated § 54.1-3316(6) and (7) and § 54.1-3303(A) and (B) of the Code 

in that: 

a. He dispensed drugs without a valid prescription. More specffically, in January 

2010, he examined an employee's rash then dispensed one tablet of fluconazole 150mg (Schedule 

VI) to the employee. 

b. Mr. Miller altered the prescription as to amount supplied and number of refills 

available. More specifically, Mr. Miller attempted to alter the refill amounts for prescriptions 

written on or about January 7, 2010, for contour test strips from none to "pm" and on nadolol 

(Schedule VI) from three (3) to "pm." 

5. Mr. Miller may have violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13) and § 54.1-3410(D) of the Code in 

that between December 2009, and February 2010, he received oral prescriptions without making a written 

record of the fall name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription. 

6. Mr. Mifier may have violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13), § 54.1-3410(B)(1) and § 541- 

3411(2) of the Code and 18 VAC 110-20-320(A) of the Regulations in that he dispensed drugs without 

authorization from the prescriber. More specifically, on or about December 31, 2009, Mr. Miller issued 

RX #755662 for Diflucan (fluconazole, Schedule VI), when he did not have authorization to refill the 

drugs. 

2 



M. Miller 

7. Mr. Miller may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7) and § 54.1-3410 of the Code and 18 

VAC 110-20-360(B) of the Regulations in that on or about January 13, 2010, he failed to properly record all 

of the required information when he received a prescription from another pharmacy. 

FOR THE BOARD 

Caroline D. Juran 
Executive Director 

Entered: January 19, 2011 

3 



COMMONWEALTH of VIRQINIA 
Dianne L. Reynolds-Cane, D Department of Health Professions www.dhp.virginia.gov 

Director Perimeter Center TEL (804) 367- 4400 

9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300 FAX (804) 527- 4475 
Henrico, Virginia 23233-1463 

Board of Pharmacy 
804/367-4456 

804/527-4472 (fax) 

August 25, 2010 

Michael S. Miller CERTLFIED MAIL 
Mailed to the legal address of record RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
With the Virginia Board of Pharmacy 

NOTICE 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

This is official notification that an informal conference will be held before a Special Conference 
Committee ("Committee") of the Board of Pharmacy on September 21, 2010, at 1:00 p.m., at the 
Department of Health Professions, Perimeter Center, Commonwealth Conference Center, 9960 

Mayland Drive, Suite 201, 1-lenrico, Virginia. You must sign in with your name and your arrival time 
to note your appearance. This sign-in sheet will be located on the security desk. The conferences 
will be held in the time order that you have recorded as present on the sign-in sheet. Please wait in 
the designated waiting room and you will be called once the Committee is ready to proceed with the 
conference. If you have any additional documents to be presented on your behalf, please bring five (5) 

copies with you. 

In accordance with § 2.2-4019, § 2.2-4021 and § 54.1-2400(10) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended ("Code"), this conference is being held to review allegations that you may have violated 
portions of the laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy in the Commonwealth of 

Virginia. Specifically, during the course of your employment as pharmacist-in-charge of CVS/pharmacy 
417343, Gate City, Virginia: 

1. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(7), and § 54.1-3410.2(B) of the Code and 18 VAC 110- 

20-270(C) and 18 VAC 110-20-321 of the Board of Pharmacy Regulations ("Regulations") in that, on 

several occasions, you provided customers with at least four (4) expired doses of compounded 
phenergan (promethazine, Schedule I). 

Board of Audiology & Speech-Language Pathology — Board of Counseling — Board of Dentistry — Board of Funeral Directors & 

Board of Long-Term Care Administrators — Board of Medicine — Board of Nursing — Board of Optometry — Board of Pharmacy 
Board of Physical Therapy — Board of Psychology — Board of Social Work— Board of Vetelinary Medicine 

Board of Health Professions 



M. Miller 

2. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1), (2) and (13) of the Code, and 18 VAC 110-20- 
190(C) of the Regulations in that you allowed an unauthorized person access to the prescription 
department. 

3. You may have violated § 5.4.1-3316(7) and § 54.1-3462(1) of the Code in that you mixed 
generic and brand name drugs in the same prescription bottle and mislabeled the bottle in that you did 
not indicate that both drugs were in the bottle. 

4. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7), § 54.1-3432 and § 54.1-3434 of the Code 
and 18 VAC 110-20-190(C) of the Regulations in that, on or about February 19, 2010, as a result of an 
emergency, you left the premises without securing the pharmacy and leaving the pharmacy 
technicians unsupervised. 

5. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(6) and (7) arid § 54.1-3303(A) and (B) of the Code in 
that: 

a. You dispensed drugs without a valid prescription. More specifically: 

i. In January 2010, you examined an employee's rash and then dispensed 
one tablet of fluconazole 150mg (Schedule VI) to the employee; 

ii. On or about February 5, 2010, you dispensed RX# 758650 for Ventolin 
HEA (albuterol, Schedule Vi). 

iii. On or about February 5, 2010, you dispensed RX# 758619 for Lipitor 
(atorvastatin, Schedule VI). 

iv. On or about February 7, 2010, you dispensed RX# 758704 for 
promethazine (Schedule VI) when another prescription for promethazine had been 
issued on January 28, 2010, to the same patient. 

v. On or about February 10, 2010, you dispensed RX# 758972 for valacyclovir 
(Schedule VI). 

b. You altered the prescription as to amount supplied and number of refills 
available. More specifically: 

i. On or about February 6, 2010, you dispensed RX# 758699 for Crestor 
(rosuvastatin, Schedule VI), as a refill but you altered the amount of medication 
dispensed and the number of refills authorized from the prescription that was written. 

ii. You attempted to alter the refill amounts for prescriptions written on or 
about January 7, 2010, for contour test strips from none to "pm" and on nadolol 
(Schedule VI) from three (3) to "pm." 

0202-010416 



M. Miller 

6. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13) and § 54.1-3410(D) of the Code in that, 
between December 2009, and February 2010, you received oral prescriptions without making a written 
record of the full name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription. 

7. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13), § 54.1-3410(B)(1) and § 54.1-3411(2) of 
the Code and 18 VAC 110-20-320(A) of the Regulations in that you dispensed drugs without 
authorization from the prescriber. More specifically: 

a. On or about December 31, 2009, you dispensed RX# 755662 for Diflucan 
(fluconazole, Schedule I) when you did not have authorization to refill the drug. 

b. On or about December 17, 2009, you dispensed RX# C754685 for 
hydrocodone/APAP 5/500 (Schedule ifi) when you did not have authorization to refill the 
drug. 

c. On or about February 7, 2010, you issued RX# C758703 for phendimetrazine ER 
(Schedule Ill) when the prescription was on hold. 

8. You may have violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7) and § 54.1-3410 of the Code and 18 VAC 
110-20-360(B) of the Regulations in that, on or about January 13, 2010, you failed to properly record all 
of the necessary information when you received a copy of a prescription from another pharmacy. 

The purpose of an informal conference is to allow the Committee that consists of two members 
of the Virginia Board of Pharmacy, to inquire into, and discuss with you personally, these allegations. 
After reviewing the alleged violations with you, the Committee will make a decision regarding 
appropriate action. The Committee is authorized to take the following actions: 

1. If the Committee finds that there is insufficient evidence to warrant further action or that the 
charges are without they will so advise and further, you will be notified by mail that your 
record has been cleared of any charge that might affect your right to practice pharmacy in the 
Commonwealth; 

2. The Committee may place you on probation with such terms as it may deem appropriate; 
3. The Committee may reprimand you; 
4. The Committee may impose a monetary penalty pursuant to § 54.1-2401 of the Code; or 

5. The Committee may refer the case to the Board of Pharmacy or a panel thereof for a formal 
hearing. If the Committee is of the that a suspension or revocation of your license may be 
justified, the Committee may offer you a consent order in lieu of a formal hearing. 

You have the right to information that will be relied upon by the Committee in making a 
decision. Therefore, I have enclosed a copy of the documents that will be distributed to the members 
of the Committee and will be considered by them when discussing the allegations with you and when 
deliberating upon your case. These documents are enclosed only with the original notice sent by 
certified mail and must be claimed at the post office. Relevant sections of the Administrative Process 
Act, which govern proceedings of this nature, as well as laws relating to the practice of pharmacy and 

0202-010416 



M. Miller 

other healing arts in Virginia cited in this notice can be found on the Internet at . 
To access this information, please click on the Code of Virginia for statutes and Virginia Administrative 
Code for regulations 

In its deliberations, the Committee may use the Sanction Reference Points System, as contained 
in the Sanction Reference Manual. The manual, which is a guidance document of the Board, may be 
accessed at . Please click on guidance documents, then select 
#110-21. You may also request a paper copy from the Board office at (804) 367-4456, option #3. 

A request to continue this proceeding must be made in writing and directed to me at the 
address listed on this letter or it may be sent via facsimile transmission to 804/527-4472. Such request 
must be received by 5:00 in, on September 14, 2010. Only one such motion will be considered. 
Absent extraordinary circumstances, such as personal or family illness, a request for a continuance 
after September 14, 2010, will not be considered. 

You may be represented by an attorney at the informal conference. If it is your intention to 
retain an attorney to represent you at this proceeding, you should do so as soon as possible, as counsel 
may find it necessary to request a continuance due to their unavailability. Please have counsel forward 
a letter of representation to me at the above address or facsimile number. Requests must be received 
by September 14, 2010, to be considered by the Committee. After that date, such requests will be 
considered on the basis of whether a good faith effort to obtain counsel within this time parameter was 
attempted and that you were not successful. 

Please inform this office of your intention to appear at the conference at least ten (10) days prior 
to the scheduled date above. Should you fail to appear at the informal conference, the Committee may 
proceed in your absence. If you have any questions regarding this notice of informal conference or the 
procedures involved, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours truly, 

Cathy M. Re 
Deputy Executive Director 

Enclosures 

cc: David C. Kozera, Committee Chair 
John 0. Beckner, Committee Member 
Myki D. Egan, DHP Adjudication Specialist 
Donald M. Jackson, DHP Investigator (#130891) 

0202-010416 



VIRGINIA: 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IN RE: MICHAEL S. MILLER, PHARMACIST 
License No.: 0202-010416 

ORDER 

Pursuant to § 2.2-4019, § 2.2-4021 and § 54.1-2400(10) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended 

a Special Conference Committee ("Committee's) of the Virginia Board of Pharmacy 

composed of David C. Kozera, Pharmacist, and John 0. Beckner, Pharmacist, met regarding Michael S. Miller, 

Pharmacist, on September 21, 2010, in Hennico County, Virginia. Mr. Miller appeared in person at the 

informal conference and was not represented by counsel. The purpose of the informal conference was to 

receive and act upon evidence concerning the allegations in the Notice of Informal Conference dated August 

25,2010. 

After consideration of the evidence and statements concerning the allegations, the Committee makes 

the following findings of fact and conclusions of law: 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Michael S. Miller holds license number 0202-010416 issued by the Board to practice pharmacy 

in the Commonwealth of Virginia. By Order of the Board of Pharmacy ("Board Order") entered May 8, 2002, 

his license was suspended. Said license was reinstated on May 17, 2002. Mr. Miller was subject to a 

reprimand and a monetary penalty in a Board Order entered October 30, 1998, for failure to acquire 

continuing education. He was also reprimanded and given a monetary penalty by a Board Order entered 

March 7, 2008, for failure to record necessary information on transferred prescriptions and dispensing expired 

drugs. 

2. During the course of his employment as the Pharmacist-in-Charge of CVS/pharmacy #7343, 

Gate City, Virginia: 

a. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(7) and § 54.1-3410.2(B) of the Code and 18 VAC 110-20- 

270(C) and 18 VAC 110-20-321 of the Board of Pharmacy Regulations ("Regulations") in that he provided 

customers with four (4) expired doses of compounded phenergan (promethazine, Schedule VI). 



M. Miller 

b. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(7) and § 54.1-3462(1) of the Code in that he mixed 

generic and brand name drugs in the same prescription bottle and mislabeled the bottle when he failed to 

indicate that both drugs were in the bottle. 

c. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7), § 54.1-3432 and § 54.1-3434 of the Code and 

18 VAC 110-20-190(C) of the Regulations in that on February 19, 2010, as the result of an emergency, he left 

the premises without securing the pharmacy department and left the pharmacy technicians unsupervised. 

d. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(6) and (7) and § 54.1-3303(A) and (B) of the Code in that 

in January 2010, he examined an employee's rash and dispensed one tablet of fluconazole 150mg (Schedule 

VI) to the employee to treat the rash. The employee had no prescription for the drug. 

e. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13) and § 54.1-3410(D) of the Code in that 

between December 2009, and February 2010, he received oral prescriptions without making a written record 

of the full name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription. 

f. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(1), (7) and (13), § 54.1-3410(B)(1) and § 54.1-3411(2) of 

the Code and 18 VAC 110-20-320(A) of the Regulations in that on December 31, 2009, he dispensed the full 

quantity using an expired prescription, RX #755662 for Diflucan (fluconazole, Schedule VI), when he did not 

have authorization to reffil the prescription. 

g. Mr. Miller violated § 54.1-3316(1) and (7) and § 54.1-3410 of the Code and 18 VAC 110- 

20-360(B) of the Regulations in that on January 13, 2010, he failed to properly record all of the necessary 

information when he received a copy of a prescription from another pharmacy. 

ORDER 

WHEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby 

ORDERED that: 

1. Michael S. Miller shall be issued a REPRIMAND. 

2. Within ninety (90) days from the date this Order is final, Mr. Miller shall provide evidence to 

the Board that he has taken and passed the Virginia Drug Law Examination. 

3. Michael S. Miller shall be assessed a monetary penalty of One Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($1,500.00) to be paid to the Board within sixty (60) days from the date this Order is final. If the 

2 



M. Miller 

monetary penalty is not received within the prescribed deadline, an additional One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) will be assessed weekly, up to a maximum of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00). Failure to pay the 

full fee plus the additional assessed penalty within thirty (30) days of the date the maximum penalty may be 

assessed shall constitute grounds for the suspension of the license of Mr. Miller, and an administrative 

proceeding will be convened to determine whether such license shall be suspended. 

Mr. Miller shall maintain a course of conduct commensurate with the requirements of Chapters 33 and 

34, Title 54.1 of the Code. Any violation of these terms or of any law or regulation affecting the practice of 

pharmacy in the Commonwealth of Virginia shall constitute grounds for the suspension or revocation of his 

license and an administrative proceeding shall be convened to determine whether such license shall be 

suspended or revoked. 

Pursuant to § 2.2-4023 and § 54.1-2400.2 of the Code, the signed original of this Order shall remain in 

the custody of the Department of Health Professions as a public record and shall be made available for public 

release, inspection and copying upon request. 

Should Mr. Miller disagree with the Committee's decision, he may request a formal administrative 

hearing before the Board or a panel thereof, pursuant to § 54.1-2400(10) of the Code, not later than 5:00 p.m. 

on October 31, 2010, by notifying, in writing, the Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, Perimeter Center, 

Commonwealth Conference Center, 9960 Maylartd Drive, Suite 300, Henrico, Virginia 23233. Upon the 

filing with the Executive Director for a request for a formal administrative hearing, this Order shall be 

vacated. 

Therefore, this Order shall become final on October 31, 2010, unless a request for a formal 

administrative hearing is received as described above. 

FOR THE BOARD: 

Carofhte D. Juran 
Acting Executive Director 

Entered: September 28, 2010 

3 



COMMONWEALTH of VIRQINIA 
Dianne L. Reynolds-Cane, M.D. Department of Health Professions www.dhp.vicginia.gov 
Director Perimeter Center TEL (804) 367- 4400 

9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300 FAX (804) 527- 4475 
Henrico, Virginia 23233-1463 

Board of Pharmacy 
804/367-4456 

804/527-4472 (fax) 

April 8, 2011 

Michael S. Miller 
189 Hilton Road 
Gate City, VA 24251 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

Pursuant to the Board Order entered September 28, 2010, this will confirm receipt of 
your personal check in the amount of $1500.00 as payment of your monetary penalty. In 
addition, this confirms receipt of your passing test score dated November 16, 2010. As you 
have now fulfilled all the requirements of your Order, monitoring has ceased and your file 
has been closed. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 804-3674645 if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Susan A. Beasecker, Compliance Case Manager 
Board of Pharmacy 

Board of Audiology & Speech-Language Pathology — Board of Counseling — Board of Dentistry — Board of Funeral Directors & Embalmers 
Board of Long-Term Core Administrators — Board of Medicine — Board of Nursing — Board of Optometry — Board of Pharmacy 

Board of Phy5ical Therapy — Board of Psychology- Board of Social Work — Board of Vetennary Medicine 
Board of Health Professions 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 13 of 25) 

12-13-12;02:17PM:From:University of Florida ;3522736449 

STATEMENT OF CONTINIJIN&PHARMACY 

EDUCATION CREDIT 

1 PARTICIPANT:INFORMAflON. PROGRAM INFORMATION 
NAME of Florida College of Pharmacy Improving Patient Safety Errors 

0012-0000-11-098-HO5P.20-314039 (K) DATE 12113/2012 
UNIV. PRO(. NO. 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 

NAME Shane Miller 

189 Hilton Road 

CITY, ZIP gate Cdy VA 24251 

CREDIT INFORMATION 

CflFDITS ISSUrD: 0.2 CEU 

oR 2 CONTACT HOURS 

# 1/ 1 

AUThORIZED 
SIGNA1URE t 



POWER-PAK CE; 
$TATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

TITLf: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Benefits of Probiotics in the 
Education, LLC Management of 

Disorders 

ACPE URN DATE: 

0430-0000-1 1-040-HOl -P 12/20/2011 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge (3112013 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

.IAME CREDiTS EARNED: 

Sharue Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS 13-D, 14-D 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/1/2012 

CITY STATE, ZIP, AUTH3RIZED 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 

RN 



-R2 

Creative Educational Concepts, Inc. 
116 Dennis Drive, Lexington, KY 

creative (859)260-1717 FAX: (859)276-6118 

e d u cat o no 
concepts 

PROVIDER PROGRAM ACTIVITY TYPE: 

Creative Educational Concepts, InC. Paving a New Path: Avoiding Pain Management Pitfalls in the 
Community-Based Pharmacy 

ACPE NO 61012011 - 611012012 

0245-0000-11 -020-HOl -P 

Shane Miller CREDITS ISSUED: 

189 HLTON RD 
0.1 CEU 

Gate Virginia 

1.00 CONTACT 
Contact us online: HOURS 

http:)lwww.ceconceptS.flet 

DATE: 111/2012 

SIGNATURE 



CE 
STATEMENT QF CREDIT 

ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Treatment of Otitis Media 

EducationS LLC 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-10-042-H01-P 111112010 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 11/3012012 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Mifler 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 17-C 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/1/2012 

CITY, STATE, ZIP 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 

_____ ______________ 

RN, 



POWER-PAK C.E 
STATEMENT OF ]QNCREDtT 

PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Update on Federal Controlled Substance 

Education, LLC Dispensing Responsibilities 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE 

0430-0000-11 -031-H03-P 11(1/2011 

ACT] VTY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE 

Knowledge 1fl3012013 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDiTS EARNED 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUEST]ONS MiSSED; 4-A, 5-A 

189 HiLTON RD STATEMENT iSSUED ON 111/2012 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: AuTHORIZED 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 
sIGNATURE / 

RN. BSW 



POWER-PAK C.E 
STATEMENT OF PHARMACY CREDIT — 

ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

TITLE 

Postgraduate healthcare When Dietary Changes Are Not Enough: 

Education, LLC A Pharmacist's Guide To 
Recommending Fiber Supplementation 

AOPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-11 12115(2011 

ACTiVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 12131/2013 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Miller 
ADDRESS. QUESTIONS MiSSED: 5-D. 11-B 

189 HILTON RD ATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/112012 

J 2 
CITY, STATE, ZIP: 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 1 

RN. MSN 



FOWER-PAK CE 
STATEMENT QF CONTINUING PHARMACY CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIViTY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Insights into the Appropriate Use of 
Education, LUC lrssulin Pens 

ACRE UAN RELEASE DATE 

-0000-1O-004-H01-P 2f1/2010 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATiON DATE 

Knowledge 2128/2C12 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT 

NAME: CREDTS EARNED: 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 16-B 17-B 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON 111f2012 

CITY, STATE, 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 SIGNATURE 

RN 8SN 

0 



POWER-PAK 
RMACY EDUCATION 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME TITLE 

Postgraduate Ilealthcare Medication Disposal: Issues and 

LLC Legal Considerations for pharmacists 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-11-028-H03-P 101112011 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 10/3112013 

PARTICIPANT CREDIIINFORMATION 
CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTiONS MISSED: 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON. 111f2012 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 
Susarn. RN. BSN 

ovd 



POW 
STATEMENT 

ER-PAK 
OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Current Treatment Approaches to 
Education, LLC Common Ocular Disorders Within the 

Framework of Man aged Care: 
Strategies To Attain Improved Patient 
Outcomes 

ACPE ID. EXAM SUBMITTED ON; 

430-000-09-007-H01-P 

EXAM PROCESSED ON; 

1(29/2011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME. CREDITS 

S bane S Miller 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Flours 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED; 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT SSUED ON: 1(29/2011 

ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

CLTy',STATE,ZIP. J 

Gate City, VA 24251 AUtHORIZED 
/ 

RN. SSN 

Back to Home 

d 



POWER-PAK CE. 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING 7HARMACY EDUCATION 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Strategies for Recorri mending 

Education, LLC Nonprescription Headache Products 
for Your Patients 

ACPE ID. EXAM SUBMITTED ON: 

011 
EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

1(29/2011 

PARTICIPANT IN FORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane S Miller 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: ,16-D 
HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/29/2011 

ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: / 

Gate City, VA 24251 .E I 
RP4, BSN 

Back to Home 

gd 



POWER-PAKC.E 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TLTLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Prebiotics: Educating Consumers and 

Education, LLC Health Care Professionals About an 

Emerging Health Concept 

ACPE ..D. EXAM SUBMITTED ON: 

0430-0000-1 0-037-HOl -P 1(29/2011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

1/29/2011 

PARTICIPANT IN FORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME EARNED: 

Shane S Milier 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 7-C,20-A 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSLED ON: 1/29/2011 

ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: I 
Gate City, VA 24251 AUThORIZED 

S3GNATURE — 1 

RN, 

Bock to Home 

\ 



POWER-PAK C.E 
STATEMENT OF CONTiNUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CF. EDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Continued Importance of 
Education, LLC Controlled Substance by 

Health Care Professionals 

ACPE .D. EXAM SUBMlTTED ON: 

1/2912011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

1/29/2011 

PARTICIPANT CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED 

Shane S Mifler 0.20 CEIJ or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS: QUESTiONS MISSED: 20-D 

189 HILTON RD SATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/2912011 

ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

CITY, STATE. / 
Gate City! VA 24251 AUTHORIZED 

J 

RN, 85W 

to Home 

\O 

9 d 



POWER-PAK 
STATEMENT OF CONTiNUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Collaborative Practice Agreements: 
Education, LLC They Are Beneficial to Your 

Practice 

ACPE 1.0. EXAM SUBMiTTED ON: 

430-000-09-025-H03-P 112912011 

EXAM ON: 

112912011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED. 

Shane S Miller 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS QUESTIONS MISSED: 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1129/2011 

ORIG%NAL STATEMENT 

CITY, STATE. ZIP: / 

Gate City, VA 24251 
J 

RH, 

E8ck Home 



POWER-PAK CE 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE 

Postgraduate Healthcare Avoiding Acetaminophen Toxicity: The 

Education, LLC s Role in Safety and Patient 
Ed ucation 

ACPE ID. EXAM SUBMiTTED ON: 

0430-0000-09-026-HOl -P 1129/2011 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

1/29/2011 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDiTS EARNED: 

Shane S Miller 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

QUESTiONS MISSED. 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT iSSUED ON: 1/29/2011 

ORIGINAL STATEMENT 

CITY. STATE, ZP: I 
Gate City, VA 24251 AUThORIZED 

SIGNATURE 

Suanie RN. 

Home 

Vd 





CE 
STATEMENT OF CONTINU1NO EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITOR INFORMATION PROGRAM INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Over-the-Counter Use of Neuroactive 
Education, LLC Peptides for the Treatment of Chronic 

Pain 

ACPF iD. EXAM ON 

0430-0000-10-045-H01-P 112e1201 I 

EXAM PROCESSED ON: 

i1291201 I 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT 

NAME. CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane S Miller 0.20 CEU or 2.00 Credit Hours 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 4-B 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/2912011 

STATEMENT 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: / 

Gate City, VA 24251 
SIGNATURE 

RN. 

Beck to F-lame 



POWER-PAK CE 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: ITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Supplementation: What 

Education, LLC Pharmacists Need to Know to 
Recommend Safe and Effective 

Formulations 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-11 -034-HOl -P 1 1/1012011 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 11130/2013 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Mifler 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTiONS MISSED: 2-A, 6-D, 19-C, 20-6 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/112012 

CITY, STATE, ZIP. 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 / 
BSN 

Lid 



POWER-PAK CE: 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Counseling Patients About Over-the- 

Education, LLC Counter Treatment of Teething Pain 

UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-1 101 -P 10/30/2012 

ACTiVITY TYPE EXPRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 10131/2014 

PARTICIPANT CREDIT INFORMATION 

CREDITS EARNEJ: 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 1-s, 2-B, 7-C, 13-D 

189 HILTON RD STATEMEN ON: 1/112013 

I ' 
CITY, STATE ZIP: 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 SICN4TJRE I 

RN. 



6Ld 

STATEMENT OF PARTICIPATION 

O cfrtnle Or ':lcOw /100 

aize Miller 

ist. 0/tn ,C J thr cc/u: our ra/ co 

Tirinking A Insulin The and Short of It 

• 7.3 1;2314 

Thc ?os lrsiilutc for Mediciiic this 

aclisity r con::cI (0,2 LIre 

ion Co uuci br acy Educatici n. 

.Octivio Nuiohcr — I 10 —0 

s Type. Knou ledge 

1- 
0 - 

1 IM Ti e Pr gracu i t. Irs lilt. or 

rccredoed lie Ace dilolior Council br 
Pharniccy FducaLior. a prcrv 01cr of 

i ig phariacy ccocii loll. 

Traca '). 
Director o Medical 

inslituic br ivlcOiCiflC 

Nnglcwood. CO 
(303) 799-' 030 

(303i - jr_s Dale ceri/Ocice ill '2013 



POWER—PAK C.E. 
C ED IT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare The Omnibus Budget Act 1 LLC of 1990 (OBRA-90) Mandate: 
Decades Later 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-1 2-003-H03-P 1(15/2012 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 1131/2014 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Mifler 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/1/2013 

/2 
CITY, STATE, ZIP: AUTHORIZED 

Gate City, Virginia I 
Susanne RN USH 

oz d 



FOWER-PAK CE; 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME. TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Complexities of Current Gout Therapy; 
Education, LLC Reducing Flares While Managing Risk 

AOPE LJAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-1 2-01 1-101 -P 7/2012012 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

ledge 7131120i4 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED. 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 

189 HiLTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON 1/112013 

CiTY, STATE, ZIP: 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 
RN, 



POWER-PAK CE: 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TIThE: 

Postgraduate l-lealthcare Update on Biosimilars: An Emergrng 
Education, LLD Category of Biologic Drugs 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-1 2-028-Hal-P 10/2012012 

TYPE EXDIRATION 

Knowledge 10/3112014 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: CUESTIONS MISSED. 11-C 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/1/2013 

I /.' 
STATE, ZIP. AUTHORIZED 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 

RN, BSN 



POWER-PAK 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE; 

Postgraduate Healthcare Counseling Patients About Heartburn, 
LLC Constipation, and Intestinal Gas 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-1 2-035-HOl -P 12120/2012 

ACTIVITY TYPE EXPIRATION DATE: 

Knowledge 12/31/2014 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Miller 2.00 

QUESTiONS MISSED: 4-D, 5-A, 10-A, 19-D, 
ADDRESS: 20-A 

189 HILTON RD ISSUED ON: 1/1/2013 

/ 
CiTY, STATE, ZIP: 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 1 

RN. 

d 



d 

PO\'VER-PAK 
STATEMENT OF CONTINUING PHARMACY EDUCATION CREDIT 

ACCREDITED PROVIDER ACTIVITY INFORMATION 

NAME: TITLE: 

Postgraduate Healthcare Ocular Surface Health in Glaucoma 
Education, LLC Management: The Pharmacist's Role 

ACPE UAN RELEASE DATE: 

0430-0000-1 2-038-HOl -e 1212012012 

ACTIVITY TYPE DATE: 

Knowledge 12/3112014 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION CREDIT INFORMATION 

NAME: CREDITS EARNED: 

Shane Miller 2.00 

ADDRESS: QUESTIONS MISSED: 6-D, 12-B, 13-B, 16-D 

189 HILTON RD STATEMENT ISSUED ON: 1/1/2013 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: 

Gate City, Virginia 24251 

RN. 



Mission: 
To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 

state, county & community efforta. 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACS 
State Surgeon General & Secretary 

Joshua Klasinski 
4475 Streamside Court 
Sarasota, FL 34233 

RE: Appeal of Intent to Deny Licensure 

Dear Mr. Klasinski: 

January 24, 2014 

This is to advise that the above reference matter will be reviewed by the Board at their next scheduled 
meeting which is Wednesday, February 12, 2014. The meeting is being held at the Florida Hotel & 
Conference Center, 1500 Sand Lake Road, Orlando, FL 32809, (407) 859-1500. The meeting will 
begin at 9:00 a.m. 

You are not required to appear; however, you are encouraged to do so. Issues are heard in the order 
they are listed on the agenda. We are unable to give you an exact time your request will be heard. 
Our office will follow up in writing after the meeting regarding the Board's decision. 

You may print a copy of the agenda which will be available on the Board of Pharmacy website a week 
before the meeting at: http://www.doh.state.fl. us/mqa/pharmacy/ph_meeting. html. 

If you have any questions regarding this information, please contact me at 850-245-4444, ext. 3367. 

Florida Department of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 Tallahassee, FL 32399 
PHONE: 850/245-4292 • FAX 850/4 13-6982 

www.FlorldasHealth.com 
ITTER:NealthyFLA 

FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 
YOUTUBE: fldoh 

HEALTH 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

Sincerely, 

Cumbie, 
Regulatory Specialist II 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK 

STATE OF FLORIDA DATE OCT 2 9 2013 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

IN RE: THE APPLICATION OF 

JOSHUA S. KLASINSKI 

______________________________________________________I 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO DENY LICENSE 

This matter appeared before the Board of Pharmacy at a duly-noticed public meeting held 

on October 9, 2013, in Panama City Florida, for consideration of an application for licensure as a 

Registered Pharmacy Technician. The applicant was not present. Upon consideration of the 

information provided, and being otherwise advised in the premises, the Board has determined 

that the application for licensure as Registered Pharmacy Technician is DENIED for the 

following reasons: 

I. Applicant's license to practice as a physician assistant has been disciplined. 

2. Pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), Florida Statutes, the Board may deny an applicant 

for having a license or the authority to practice any regulated profession revoked, 

suspended, or otherwise acted against, including the denial of licensure, by the 

licensing authority of any jurisdiction, including its agencies or subdivisions, for a 

violation that would constitute a violation under Florida law. 

3. Based on the forgoing and pursuant to Sections 456.072(2) and 456.072(1)(f), F.S., 

the Board denied application for licensure. 

This Notice shall be placed in and become a part of the official records and shall become 

effective upon filing with the Clerk of the Department Health. This Notice of Intent to Deny will 

become a Final Order if no further action is taken within the time period stated below. 



DONE AND ORDERED this day of , 2013. 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 

Ma31(Whitten, 
Executive Directorfor 
Albert Garcia, BPharm CHAIR 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO HEARING 

THIS ORDER CONSTITUTES A FiNAL ORDER AND FiNAL AGENCY ACTION IF NO 
REQUEST FOR A HEARiNG IS RECEIVED BY THE BOARD ON OR BEFORE THE 
TWENTY-FIRST DAY AFTER THE APPLICANT'S RECEIPT OF THE ORDER. THE 
APPLICANT MAY REQUEST A HEARiNG BY FILiNG AN APPROPRIATE PETITION 
WITH THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE BOARD AT 4052 BALD CYPRESS WAY, 
BiN # C-04, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-3256. THE APPLICANT MAY PETITION 
FOR A HEARiNG iNVOLViNG DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT BEFORE AN 
ADMiNISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (1), FLORIDA 
STATUTES, OR FOR A HEARiNG NOT iNVOLViNG DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 
FACT PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (2) FLORIDA STATUTES. 

A PETITION FOR A HEARING iNVOLViNG DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 
MUST CONTAiN iNFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.201, FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, INCLUDING A STATEMENT OF ALL DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT. THE BOARD MAY REFER A PETITION TO THE DIVISION OF 
ADMiNISTRATIVE HEARiNGS FOR ASSIGNMENT OF AN ADMINISTRATWE LAW 
JUDGE ONLY IF THE PETITION IS IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULE 
REQUIREMENTS. A PETITION FOR A PROCEEDING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED 
ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 
28.106.301 FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, INCLUDING A CONCISE STATEMENT 
OF THE ULTIMATE FACTS ALLEGED, AS WELL AS THE RULES AND STATUTES 
WHICH ENTITLE PETITIONER TO RELIEF. 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 120.573, FLORIDA STATUTES MEDIATION IS NOT 
AVAILABLE. 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by 

Certified Mail to Joshua S. Klasinski, at 4475 Streamside Court, Sarasota, Florida 34233; by 

interoffice mail to David D. Flynn, Esquire, Assistant Attorney General, Office of the Attorney 

General, 32399-1050; thi$ of_______________ 

2013. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 

7012 30S0 0001 9149 



To: the Executive Director of the Board of Pharmacy 

Re: Petition to Florida Board of Pharmacy (Agency), F.A.C. 28.106.301 

(a) Florida Dept. of Health 
Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-04 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
File #51724 

Florida Dept. of Health 
Board of Medicine 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-76 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
File #201204092 

(b) Joshua S. Klasinski (Petitioner), 4807 Huntleigh Drive Sarasota FL 

34233, 813-789-6480, jklasins2002@yahoo.com 

(c) Denial of pharmacy license will mean that I am not able to make a 

living for myself through this means. From year 2002 till year 2008, 

my primary occupation and means of making a living was as a 

pharmacy technician. This occupation represents the only viable 

means, at this time, for me to make a living. In order to obtain and 

reliably keep a job, that I may pay my bills (including DOH fines, 

government school loans, etc.) it is imperative that I have the ability to 

employ my experience and skills as a pharmacy technician, 

(d) Notice via letter dated October 29,2013, received by petitioner on 



November 2nd, 2013. 

(e) Facts alleged are not in dispute: 

1. Applicant's license to practice as a PA has been disciplined 

2. Pursuant to Section 456.072(1)(f), F.S., the board may deny an 

applicant for having a license or the authority to practice any 

regulated profession revoked, suspended, or otherwise acted 

against, by the licensing authority, for a violation that would 

constitute a violation under Florida Law. 

(f) The petitioner requests modification of the agency's proposed action 

according to wording in section 456.072(2), F.S. stating the Agency 

"MAY enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties"; 

and 456.36 F.S., providing for exemption from disqualification from 

employment, which agency's proposed action inevitably leads to. 

(g) Having had no prior problems during my 7+ years working in 

pharmacy, instead having full commendation by my employers, and 

due to my responsibilities in paying my bills I request the ability to 

work as a pharmacy technician. Other than PA, which I am barred 

from currently, I have no other solid work experience. Lastly, I would 

like to bring into consideration the fact that the pharmacy in which I 



have completed the required training program, is a long-term care 

facility having no direct contact with patients. It is my endeavor to work 

there until the discipline for my PA license has been carried out and I 

am able to lawfully reenter the PA workforce. 

(h) No material facts are in dispute. 

sincerely, 

Joshua Klasinski 

11-12-13 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 28> 

VL: 91206B720 
ITEM #2 - Pharmacy Technician Registration 

FEE: $105.00 
Please print or type legibly 

1. Biographical data 

Last name First name Middle name 

Street address (ML — Mailing Location) City State Zip 

FL 
Work address (PL — Practice Location) 
(If you are not employed, please list your mailing address 

below). If you have multiple practice locations, please 
submit on an additional sheet, attach with application. 

City State Zip 

ç73L (j&rk 1L 

Home phone number Business phone number Date of birth 

I 

E-mail address 

Would you be willing to provide health services in 
special needs shelters or to help staff disaster medical 
assistance teams during times of emergency or major 
disasters? 

Yes No 

Yes No 

Name Date 

DH-MQA PHi 183, 09109 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 
Page 2 of 6 

FLORIDA OF 

HEALT 
FLORIDA BOARD' 
P.O. Box 6320 • Tat 

Phone: (850) 
http://wwwdoh.stati 

10: 51517 

105.00 
Type: F 

EIT: 3023522 

2. Equal Opportunity Data — We are required to ask that you furnish the following information as part of your 

voluntary compliance with Section 2, Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection Procedure (1978) 

43FR38295 (August 25, 1978). The information is gathered for statistical and reporting purposes only and 

does not in any way affect your candidacy for licensure. 

SEX: 0 Female 

RACE: El Black DHispanic 0 Asian 0 Native American 0 Other 

3. Have you ever changed your name through marriage or through action of a court or have you ever 

been known by any other name? If yes, list name(s) and date(s) of the change(s) below. Use a 

separate sheet, if necessary. 



(Page 5 of 28) 

4. Have you completed a board approved training course according to Rule 64B16-26.351 (3), ? 
Yes No 

________ 

If yes, include a copy of your completed course certificate. 

5. Have you ever been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty, nob , or no contest, to a 

crime in any jurisdiction other than a minor traffic offense? 

Yes_____ No_ 

(You must Include all misdemeanors and felonies, even if adjudication was withheld by the court, so that you 

would not have a record of conviction. Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor 

traffic offense for the purposes of this question.) 

6. Has disciplinary action ever been taken against your pharmacy technician registration, or any other 

professional license you may have in this state or any other state? 

Yes 7 No 

7. Have you ever surrendered your pharmacist or any other professional license in another jurisdiction 

when disciplinary action was pending? 

Yes 7 No 

8. Are you presently under investigation or is any disciplinary action pending against ? 
Yes No 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 
Page 3 of 6 



(Page 7 of 28) 

13. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under Chapter 409, F.S. (relating to social and economic assistance), Chapter 817, 

F.S. (relating to fraudulent practices), Chapter 893, F.S. (relating to drug abuse prevention and control) or 

a similar felony offense(s) in another state or jurisdiction? (If you responded "no", skip to ) 
Yes No 

I 3a. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent ? 

Yes No 

13b. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 
the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes). 

Yes No 

13c. If "yes" to 13, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.13(6)(a), Florida Statutes, has it 
been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No 

13d. If "yes" to 13, have you successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for 
the felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No______ 

14. Have you been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 
adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 (relating to controlled substances) or 42 
U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396 (relating to public health, welfare, Medicare and Medicaid issues)? 

Yes______ No______ 

14a. If "yes" to 14, has it been more than 15 years before the date of application since the 
sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ? 
Yes_______ No______ 

15. Have you ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.91 3, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 15a.) 

Yes No 

15a. If you have been terminated but reinstated, have you been in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

DH-MQA PH1183, 09/09 
Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Page 5 of6 



(Page 8 of 28) 

Section 456.013(1)(a), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect 

any material change in any circumstances or changes stated in the application which takes place 
between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might 

affect the decision of the department. 

The statements contained in this application are true, complete and correct and I agree that said statements 
shall form the basis of my application and 1 do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any 
investigations they deem appropriate and to secure any additional information concerning me. I further authorize 

them to furnish any information they may have or have in the future concerning me to any person, corporation, 

institution, association, board or any municipal, county, state, or federal government agencies or units, and that I 

understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy statutes, a pharmacy technician registration may be 

revoked or suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other 

thing, with an application for a license or permit, as set forth in section 456.015(2)(a), F.S. 

Signature 

DH-MQA PHI 183, 09/09 

Rule 64B16-26.350, F.A.C. 

Date 

Page 6 of 6 

Yes No 

16. Have you ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the 

state or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? (If 

no, do not answer 16a and 16b.) 

Yes No 

16a. Have you been in good standing with a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program for 
the most recent five years? 

Yes No 

16b. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this application? 

Yes No 

17.Are you currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and ? 
Yes______ No______ 

18. If "yes" to any of the questions l3through 17 above, on or before July 1, 2009, were you 
enrolled in an educational or training program in the profession in which you are seeking 
licensure that was recognized by this profession's licensing board or the Department of 
Health? (If "yes", please provide official documentation verifying your enrollment status.) 

Yes______ No______ 

All of the above questions must be answered or your application will be returned for completion. If you 
answer "yes" to any questions in 5-16b, explain on a sheet providing accurate details, and submit a 

certified official copy of the order of the court or state board of pharmacy, supporting documents or all if 
applicable. 



C
er

tif
ic

at
e_

Q
 f C

om
pl

et
io

n 

F
or

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 c
br

np
le

tin
g 

an
d 

pa
ss

in
g 

Pa
ss

A
ss

ur
ed

's
 P

ha
rm

ac
y 

T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

T
ra

in
in

g 
C

ou
rs

e 
an

d 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Fl
or

id
a 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

ru
le

s 
fo

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 te

ch
ni

ci
an

s.
 

Pa
ss

A
ss

ur
ec

i 
an

d 
th

e 
Fl

or
id

a 
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

pr
es

en
ts

 th
is

 a
w

ar
d 

to
 

Jo
sh

ua
 K

la
si

ns
ki

 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 (

Li
ce

ns
ed

 
S

ig
na

tu
re

 

M
ay

25
,2

01
3 

F
P

hA
 S

ig
na

tu
re

 
D

at
e 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

P
as

sA
ss

ur
ed

, L
L

C
 

15
04

 W
es

t P
ar

k 
A

ve
nu

e 
T

ra
in

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 L
ic

en
se

 N
um

be
r 

O
ra

ng
e,

 T
X

 7
76

30
 

N
am

e 
of

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 B

as
ed

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 P
ha

rm
ac

y 

A
dd

re
ss

 

fL
 

C
ity

 
S

ta
te

 
Z

ip
 

M
ay

 2
5,

 2
01

3 

D
at

e 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 



(Page 9 of 28) 

To the Florida Board of Pharmacy, 06-17-13 

As required, I, Joshua Klasinski, submit an explanation and the 
included supporting documents pertaining to questions six thru 8, on page 
3 of the Pharmacy Technician Registration application. 

Prior to acquiring the license in question (Physician Assistant), my 
main occupation was certified pharmacy technician. Year 2002, I gained 
national certification as a pharmacy technician, and thence began a 
pharmacy work experience lasting from 08/2002 till 08/2008. Year 2008 I 

enrolled in physician assistant studies and graduated in 2010. Year 2011 
to 2012 I worked as a physician assistant at Suncoast Community Health 
Clinics, licensed and certified at the state and national levels. March 2012 
I was terminated from the clinic and subsequently disciplined by the 
Florida Board of Medicine. Therefore in order to pay the bills, I applied 
for work at a pharmacy, that being the only occupation I had primary 
experience in. I was hired at Mediserv LLC in late 2012 and recently 
finished the training program. 

Should you see fit to speak with a prior employer, there are two 
pharmacists who are able to testify to my work ethic and past 
employment. Karl Richards RPh (813-376-3941), and Nancy Washmuth 
RPh (941-377-1838). 

sincerely, 

Joshua Klasinski 



To: the Regulatory Specialist 07-19-2013 

RE: file # 51724 Pharmacy Technician application 

1. Detailed description of circumstances surrounding disciplinary action: 

March 2011, I, Joshua Klasinski, was terminated from Suncoast 
Community Health Centers as active provider Physician Assistant. During 
that time, a complaint was filed by one of my female patients, to the DOH. 
On one occasion during an office visit with aforementioned patient, I made 
inappropriate comments and lingered during palpation as part of the 
physical exam. This crossing of the patient/care-giver boundary, was the 
occasion for said patient's filing of a complaint. Upon my immediate self- 
reporting, the DOH began the investigation and subsequently required me to 
stop working as a PA and to appear before the board. February 2012 I 

appeared before the board and subsequently, the board, and I, agreed to a 
final order for discipline and future practice. 

2. Thorough description of rehabilitative changes in lifestyle since 
disciplinary action: 

Intensive 10 week counseling with two certified counselors at Calvary 
Chapel, Sarasota. Counseling focused directly on heart of the issue 
surrounding my actions, and involved daily homework and weekly 
accountability; formulation of plan for future practice to avoid any such 
semblance or opportunity for lack of judgment and unethical action on my 
part, including: accountability partners, active presence of a third party 
during any physical exam with a female patient; continuing periodic self- 
evaluation using methods employed during the 10 week counseling. 

3. Factors contributing to disciplinary action, what has been learned since 
that time, changes made: 

Major Depression during time of disciplinary action, is in remittance 
at this time and under the care of Dr. Diego Ramos. Lack of openness and 
engaging with close social support (e.g. mother, siblings, pastor), which at 
this time has improved significantly and I continue to form relationships 
with people at my local church and with my mother and siblings whom I 

involve myself with on a daily basis. I understand, more than ever, my 
need for others to be involved in my life and whom I can be held 



accountable to, additionally I have reassessed in great detail through 
contemplation, the importance of maintaining boundaries with a patient and 
am prepared to act with more discretion as a result of my lack of judgment. 
My emotional health, is integral to my ability to practice medicine. 
Therefore I will pursue emotional health, through regular visits with my 
family doctor and forming healthy habits as advised by family and friends. 
Currently I have fulfilled 100 hours of CE's for the Physician Assistant 
career, which has enabled me to stay up-to-date on practice issues. 

Sincerely, 

Joshua Klasinski PA 



(Page 19 of 28) 

Order No. 

FiLED DATE 
Department of Hea'th 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF MEDICINE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. 
DOH CASE 2012—04092 
LICENSE NO.: PA9105912 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

Respondent. 

_________________________________________________/ 

FINAL ORDER 

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board) 

pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, on 

February 1, 2013, in Jacksonville, Florida, for the purpose of 

considering a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit 

A) entered into between the parties in this cause. Upon 

of the Settlement Agreement, the documents 

submitted in support thereof, the arguments of the parties, and 

being otherwise full advised in the premises, the Board rejected 

the Settlement Agreement and offered a Counter Settlement 

Agreement which Respondent was given 7 days to accept. By 

letter dated February 21, 2013, Respondent timely accepted the 

Board's Counter Settlement Agreement. The Counter Settlement 

Agreement incorporates the original Settlement Agreement with 

the following amendments: 



(Page 20 of 28) 

1. The costs set forth in Paragraph 3 of the Stipulated 

Disposition shall be set at $1,244.10. 

2. The suspension set forth in Paragraph 6 of the 

Stipulated Disposition shall be amended to require Respondent to 

be SUSPENDED until such time as he undergoes an evaluation by 

the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) and personally appears 

before the Board with said evaluation and the Board determines 

that Respondent is safe to practice medicine with reasonable 

skill and safety. The Board retains jurisdiction in this matter 

to impose terms and conditions of practice based upon the 

recommendations of Respondent's PRN evaluation, including but 

not limited to a term of probation, at the time Respondent's 

license to practice medicine is 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Settlement 

Agreement as submitted be and is hereby approved and adopted in 

toto and incorporated herein by reference with the amendments 

set forth above. Accordingly, the parties shall adhere to and 

abide by all the terms and conditions of the Settlement 

Agreement as amended. 

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with 

iThe Clerk cf the of 



(Page 21 of 28) 

DONE AND ORDERED this_____________ day of 

2013. 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

Director 
For Zachariah P. Zachariah, M.D., Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Final Order has been provided by Certified Mail to 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, ?.A., 4475 Stream5ide Court, Sarasota, Florida 

34238; and 3211 Beneva Road, Unit 102, Sarasota, Florida 34232; 

by email to the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) at 

and by interoffice delivery to Sharmin Hibbert, 

Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65, 

Tallahassee, Jlorida 32399—3253 this day of 

2013. 

32)! 

lOin 0002 2383 230i 

_____ 

OSilifly 

L. 
7012 1010 0002 



(Page 1 of 20) 

FILED 
OF HEALTH 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPUTY CLERK 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

vs. 

DON CASE NO.: 2012-04092 
LICENSE NO.: PA9105912 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

Respondent. 

_____________________________________________/ 

ORDER 

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board) 

pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, on 

February 1, 2013, in Jacksonville, Florida, for the purpose of 

considering a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit 

A) entered into between the parties in this cause. Upon 

consideration of the Settlement Agreement, the documents 

submitted in support thereot, the arguments of the parties, and 

being otherwise full advised in the premises, the Board rejected 

the Settlement Agreement and offered a Counter Settlement 

Agreement which Respondent was given 7 days to accept. The 

Counter Settlement Agreement incorporates the original 

Settlement Agreement with the following amendments: 

1. The costs set forth in Paragraph 3 of the Stipulated 

Disposition shall be set at $1,244.10. 



(Page 2 of 20) 

2. The suspension set forth in Paragraph of the 

Stipulated Disposition shall be amended to require Respondent to 

be SUSPENDED until such time as he undergoes an evaluation by 

the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) and personally appears 

before the Board with said evaluation and the Board determines 

that Respondent is safe to practice medicine with reasonable 

skill and safety. The Board retains jurisdiction in this matter 

to impose terms and conditions of practice based upon the 

recommendations of Respondent's PRN evaluation, including but 

not limited to a term of probation, at the time Respondent's 

license to practice medicine is reinstated. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Settlement 

Agreement as submitted is rejected and Respondent shall have 7 

days from the date this Order is filed to accept the Board's 

Counter Settlement Agreement. Acceptance of said Counter 

Settlement Agreement shall be made in writing Edward A. 

Tellechea, Chief Assistant Attorney General, PL-0l, The Capitol, 

Tallahassee, Plorida 32399-1050; or emailed to 

Ed . 
Thic Order shall take effect upon being filed with the 

Clerk of the Department of Health. 



(Page 3 of 20) 

DONE AND ORDERED this__________ day of 
2013. 

RD OF MEDICINE 

J.D.,, Executive Director 
For Zachariah P. Zachariah, M.D., Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Order has been provided by U.S. Mail to JOSHUA 

KLASINSKI, P.A., 4475 Streamside Court, Sarasota, Florida 34238; 

and 3211 Beneva Road, Unit 102, Sarasota, Florida 34232; by 

email to the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) at 

and by interoffice delivery to Sharmin Hibbert, 

Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C—65, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253 this day of 

2013. 

Deputy Agency ClerE 



(Page 4 of 20> 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DFPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEAlTH, 

Petitioner, 

V. DOH Case No. 2012-04092 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

Respondent, j 
AGREEMENT 

Joshua Kiasinski, P.A., referred to as the and the 

of Health, referred to as 1 stipulate and agree to the foliowIn4 

Agreement and to the entry of a Final Order of the Board of Medicine, referred 

as 'Board,' incorporating the Stipulated Facts and Stipulated Disposition in 

matter. 

Petitioner the state agency charged with regulating the practie u! 

physician assistance pursuant to Section Florida Statutes, and Chapter 

Florida Statutes, and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

FACTS 

1. At afl times material hereto, Respondent was a licensed physician 

assistant in the State of Florida having been issued license number PA 91059t2 

P A ?Oi 04091 



(Page 5 of 20) 

2. The Department charged Respondent with an Administrttivc 

Complaint that was filed and properly served upon Respondent witn violations of 

Chapter 158, Florida Statutes, and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. A true lvi 
cci rect copy of the Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

3. Respondent neither admits nor denies the allegations of tact contained 

in the Administrative Complaint for purposes of these proceedings only. QF LAW 

Respondent admits that, in his capacity as a licensed physiLidi 

assistant, he is subject to the provisions of Chapters 456 and 458, Florida Statutes 

and the jurisdiction of the Department and the Board. 

2. Respondent admits that the facts alleged in the Admlnls(rdtvp 

Complaint, if proven, would constitute violations of Chapter 158, Florida Statutes, 

as alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

3. Respondent agrees that the Stipulated Disposition in this case is tair. 

appropriate and acceptable to Respondent. 

STIPULATED DISPOSITION 

1. Reprimand The Board shall reprimand the license of Respondent 

2. Fine •. The Board of Medicine shall impose an administrative f}ne of tour 

thousand dollars ($4,000.00) against the license of Respondent, to be paid by 

2 ' A Lsic p112 D4F)i? 



(Page 6 of 20> 

Respondent to Payments, Department of Health, Compliance Management Unit, C 16, 

P.O. Box 6320, Tallahassee, ft 32314-6320, within thirty-days (30) from the date ot tiiinq 

of the Final Order accepting this AD tines shall be paid by cash heck 

The Board office does not have the authority to change the terms of 

payment of any fine èmposed by the Board. 

RESPONDENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TIMELY PAYMENT OF THU 

FINE IS HIS/HER LEGAL OBLIGATION AND RESPONSIBflIry AND 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICING IF THE FINE IS NOT PAID 

AS AGREED TO IN THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, SPECIfICALLy: IF 

WITHIN 45 DAYS OF THE DATE OF FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER, 

RESPONDENT HAS NOT RECEIVED WRITTEN CONFIRMATION THAT T1* 

FULL AMOUNT OF THE FINE HAS BEEN RECEIVED BY BOARD OFFiCE, 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICE UNTIL SUCH WRI1IEN 

CONFIRMATION IS RECEIVED RY SPONDENT FROM THE BOARD, 

3. of costs - Pursuant to Section 156.072, Floriia 

Statutes, Respondent agrees to pay the Department for any costs incurred ,n the 

lnveshgation and prosecution of this case. Such costs exclude the costs of 

obtaining supervision or monitoring of the practice, the cost of quality assurance 

reviews, and the Board's administrative cost directly associated with Respondent's 

probation, if any. the agreed upon amount of Department costs to be paid in this 

case is currently one thousand eIght dollars and fifty-lout cents 

3 
KJs.in,kt, Nvmbrr 



(Page 7 of 20> 

8 :' — 
—' 

($1, 008.54), but shall not exceed two thousand five hundred eight 

dollars and fifty-four cents Respondent ll pay costs to 

Payments, Department ot Health, Comphance Management Unit, Btn C—76, P 0 BOX 

6320, Tallahassee, l within thirty-days (30) from the date of filiriq ot 

the Final Order in this cause. Aticosts shaH be paid by cashiers check or 

Any post-Board costs, such as the costs associated with probation, 

ore not included in this dgreement. 

RESPONDENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TIMELY PAYMENT OF THL 

COSTS IS HiS/HER LEGAL OBLIGATION AND 'ry AND 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICING IF THE COSTS ARE NOT PAID 

AS AGREED TO IN THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, SPECIFICALLY: IF 

WITHiN 45 
DAYS OF THE DATE OF FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER, 

RESPONDENT HAS NOT RECEiVED WRIUEN CONFIRMATION THAT THE HiLL 

AMOUNT OF THE COSTS NOTED ABOVE HAS BEEN RECEIVED BY THE BOARD 

OFFICE, RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICE UNTIL SUCH WRITTEN 

CONFIRMATION IS RECEIVED BY RESPONDENT FROM THE BOARD. 

1. Conthuiing Education "Risk 

Respondent may satisfy this requirement by either completing Itve (5) hours 

Continuing Medical In "Risk Management" within one (1) year of the ddte 

of filing of the hnal Order. if Respondent chooses to meet this requirement 

through Continuing Medical Fducation, Respondent shall first submit. 

4 
P A 



(Page 8 of 20> 

request to the Probation Committee for approval of the course prior to completion 

of said continuing medical education course(s). 

Respondent may also satisfy the requirement for completing (5) fIve hours ci 

continuing medical education in risk management by attending one full clay or eight (8) 1 whichever is more, of hearings at a regular meeting of the Board of 

Medicine. In order to receive such credit, Respondent must sign in with the Executiv 

Director of the Board tefore the meeting day begins, Respondent must remain in 

continuous attendance during the full day or eight (8) hours of disciplinary heanrigs. 

wnichever is more, arid Respondent must sign out with the Executive Director (>1 thn 

l3oord at the end of the meeting day or at such other earlier time as aufirmdtlvety 

authorized by the Board. Respondent may not receive continuing medical educdtiorl 

credit in risk management for attending the disdpfinary hearings portion of a 

meeting untess, the Respondent is attending the disciplinary hearings port1on for thr 

sole purpose of obtaining the continuing medical education credit in nsk management. 

The Respondent may not reelve such credit Fl at the 8oard meeting for any 

other purpose, such as pending action against 's medical license. 

S. ol 

practice is permanently restricted in that Respondent 

may riot examine or treat female patients outside the presence of a FlorIdd 

licensed health care provider who shall maintain a log of each such patient contact 

with said log immediately available to a Department inspector upon request. 

P A .-_r 4-Q4{J92 



(Page 9 of 20) 

5. 

(A) Respondent's license shall be suspended tar a period of three 

3) . The Board reserves jurisdiction in this matter to impose any 

a period of probation, with said terms and conditions 

said probation to he determined by the Boarci at the time of reinstatement 

Respondent's license to practice physician assistance. Respondent shall not pra(ltIu' 

physician assistance in Florida until he petitions the Board for reinstatement, 

before the Board, and has his license reinstated. 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 

1. Appearance Respondent Is required to appear before the Board at 

the meeting of the Board where this Agreement is considered. 

2. No force or effect until final order - It is expressly understooci 

that this Agreement is subject to the approval of the Board and the Departpient 

In this regard, the foregoing paragraphs (and only the foregoing paragraphs) 1 
have no force and effect unless the Board enters a Final Order Incorporating 

terms of this Agreement. 

3 Education - Unless otherwise provided 

written aoreement Respondent shall first submit a written request to the Probahon 

Committee for approval prior to performance of said continuing medical education 

course(s). Respondent shall submit documentation in the form of certified 

of the receipts, vouchers, certiftcates, or other papers, such as physician' 

recognition awards, documenting completion of this methcai course within one ti) 

P A 



(Page 10 of 20) 

year of the date of hhrig of the Final Order in this matter. All such documentation 

shail be sent to the Board of Medicine, regardless of whether some Or any r 
documentation was provided previously during the course of any dudit ot 

discussion with counsel for the Department. These hours shall be in addition to 

those hours required for renewal of licensure. Unless otherwise approved by 

Board, said continuing medical education course(s) shall consist of a formal, 

lecture format. 

4. Atklresses Respondent must keep current residence and pra(tF(.n 

addresses on file with the Board. Respondent shall notify the Board 

(10) ddys of any changes of said addresses. 

5. Future Conduct In the future, Respondent shall not violate Chapter 

456, '158 or 893, Florida Statutes, or the rules promulgated pursuant thereto, or 

any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice or t.he 

ability to practice medicine. Prior to signing this agreement, the Respondent shall reac 

Chapters 456, 458 and 893 and the Rules of the Board of Medicine, at Chapter 64B8, 

Florida Administrative Code. 

6. Violation of terms considered - It is expressly understood that a 

violation of the terms of this Agreement shafl be considered a violation of a I 

Order of the Board, for which disciplinary action may be Initiated pursuant to 

Chapters '156 arid 48, Florida Statutes. 

7. urpose of Agreement - Respondent, for the purpose of avoidinq 

further administrative action with respect to this cause, executes this Agreement. 

P A Nurnijc, 2012 



(Page 11 of 20) 

in this regard, Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative tile matenals concerning Respondent prior to or in conjunction with 

conslderdtlon of the Agreement. Respondent agrees to support this Agreement 

the time it Is presented to the Board and shall offer no evrdence, tesfimorry .r 

argument that disputes contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion ot 

Furthermore! should this Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it is agreed 

that presentation to and consideration of this Agreement and other documents dnO 

matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice the Board or any of its 

members Ironi further participation, consideration or resolution of these 

proceedings 

8. No preciusion gf Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Agreement and subsequent Final Order 

Incorporating same will in no way preclude additional proceedings by the Board 

and/or the Department against Respondent for acts or omissions not speciticaily 

set forth in the Administrative Complaint attached as Exhibit A. 

9. Waiver fees and — Upon the Boards adoption 

of this Agreement, the parties hereby agree that with the exception of costs rioted 

above, the parties will bear their own attorney's fees and costs resulting from 

prosecution or defense of this matter. Respondent waives the right to seek any 

attorney's tees or c05t5 from the Department and the Board in connection wIth this 

matter. 

Joihu. .ift.k, P A Cstc 04092 



(Paqe 12 ot 20) 

10. procedural - Upon the Board's adoptinn 

this Agreement, Respondent expressly waives all further procedural steps dnd 

expressly waives all rights to seek judicial review of or to otherwise challenge or 

contest the validity of the Agreement and the Final Order at the hoard 

incorporating said Agreement. 

SIGNED this ) I day 
. , 7017 

Kias,nsk,, P. A. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNfyQF 

Before me, personafly appeared - , whose 
identity is or by . 

____- 

.. 
. (type of 

and who, under oath, acknowledges that his/her signature appears 
above. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of 
2012. 

0 ARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Fxpires: ., . 

tobst3 1 

9 KU A. l(U 



(sage 13 of 20> 

—j' , 
I 

ii i 
APPROVED this of 2011 

H. Frank Farmer, Jr., M.D.. Ph.D. 
State Surgeon General 
Department of Heafth 

By: R. ibbert 
Counsel 

Department of Health 

I0 
Joshua P A Cilo 101 2-040')2 



(Page 1 of 7) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITION ER, 

DOH CASE NO. 2012-04092 

JOSHUA KLASINSKI, P.A., 

RESPONDENT. 

___________I 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, the Department of Health, by and through 

its undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Medicine against Respondent, Joshua Klasinski, P.A., and in 

support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of Physician Assistance pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida 

Statutes; Chapter 456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed physician assistant in the State of Florida, having been issued 

license number PA 9105912. 



(Page 2 of 7) 

3. Respondent's address of record is 3211 Beneva Road, Unit 102, 

Sarasota, Florida 34232. 

4. On or about February 16, 2012, Patient D.M., a then fifty-eight 

year old female, presented to the Ruskin Health Clinic of Suncoast 

Community Health Center located in Ruskin Florida. 

5. Patient D.M. complained of a hard, brown spot on her left leg, 

self described as knot. The area affected on her leg was approximately 

five inches from her foot. Patient D.M. was concerned about it being a 

blood clot. 

6. Respondent saw Patient D.M. and asserts to have conducted a 

physical examination. 

7. After placing Patient D.M. on the examination table, 

Respondent checked Patient D.M.'s heart and lungs through her clothing. 

Respondent stated he wanted to check Patient D.M.'s heart and lungs 

again. 

8. While using a stethoscope during the examination to check 

Patient D. M .'s heartbeat, Respondent placed the stethoscope under Patient 

D.M.'s bra and asked her to pull her bra up further, to which Patient D.M. 

2 



3 of 7) 

stated she couldn't do. Respondent commented that D.M. had an under 

wire bra on. 

9. During this examination Respondent touched Patient D.M.'s leg 

and her inner thigh in a caressing and inappropriate manner. Respondent 

touched Patient D.M.'s leg with light pressure asking if it hurt, while 

to caress/touch Patient D.M.'s leg up her inner thigh. 

10. Respondent continued rubbing Patient D.M.'s leg up past her 

knee in an inappropriate manner. 

11. Respondent stated to Patient D.M., "I think I have exactly what 

you need" Respondent asked Patient D.M. when the last time she had 

made love was. 

12. Respondent continued the conversation by asking Patient D.M. 

if she lived alone. 

13. Respondent left the examination room to print out a 

prescription and had the medical assistant return with the prescription. 

14. Respondent came in before Patient D.M. left and apologized for 

his conduct stating, "I know I was out of line." 

15. On or about March 16, 2012, Patient D.M. reported the incident 

to administrative staff of the clinic while asking to be transferred to another 

3 



(Page of 7) 

provider. Patient D.M. asserts that she felt violated and uncomfortable 

throughout the course of this visit. 

16. Respondent later came in, after seeing Patient D.M., and 

admitted to his behavior and actions involving Patient D.M. Respondent 

asserts that it was motivated by lust. Respondent was terminated from the 

fad lily. 

Section 458.347(7)(g), Florida Statutes (2011), provides that 

the Boarc of Medicine may impose penalties authorized under sections 

456.072 and 458.331(2), Florida Statutes, upon a physician assistant if the 

physician assistant has been found guilty of or is being investigated for any 

act that constitutes a violation of Chapter 458 or Chapter 456. 

18. Section 456.072(1)(v), Florida Statutes (2011), subjects a 

licensee to discipline, including suspension or restriction of license, for 

engaging or attempting to engage in sexual misconduct as defined and 

prohibited in Section 456.063(1), Florida Statutes. 

19. Section 456.063(1), Florida Statutes (2011), defines sexual 

misconduct in the practice of a health care profession as a violation of the 

professional relationship through which the health care practitioner uses 

such to engage or attempt to engage the patient or client, or 

4 



(Page 5 of 7) 

an immediate family member, guardian, or representative of the patient or 

client in, or to induce or attempt to induce such person to engage in, 

verbal or physical sexual activity outside the scope of the professional 

practice of such health care profession. Sexual misconduct in the practice 

of a health care profession is prohibited. 

20. Respondent engaged or induced, or attempted to engage or 

induce Patient D.M. in verbal and/or physical sexual activity that included 

one or more of the following: inappropriate touching, verbal activity in the 

form of sexually explicit comments; both of these actions are outside the 

scope of the professional practice of physician assistance, in violation of 

Section 456.072(1)(v), Florida Statutes (2011), which prohibits sexual 

misconduct. 

21. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

456.072(1)(v), Florida Statutes (2011) by engaging in sexual misconduct 

with Patient D.M. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Medicine enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

5 



(Page 6 of 7) 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

SIGNED this 

_______ 

day of , 2012. 

JOHN H. ARMSTRONG, MD, 
State Surgeon General 
Florida pepatlçnent of Health / 

of Health 

Assistatit Counsel 
FILED 

032569 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DEPUTY CLERK DOH Prosecution Services Unit 

CLERK Angel Sanders 
DATE 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
(850) 245-4640 ext. 8173 
(850) 245-4681 FAX 

SRH/crv 

PCPDate: 
PCP Members: 

6 



(Page of 7) 

DOH v. Joshua Klasinsk,, P.A. DOH Case No.: 2012-04092 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess COStS related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent In addition to any other discipline imposed. 

7 



Department of Health 
Compliance Management Team 

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C76 
Tallahassee, FL 323399 

(850) 245-4268 

MAIN TERMS OF THE FINAL ORDER 

This summary is provided as a courtesy. It is your 
responsibility to read and understand the Final Order to 

ensure compliance with all terms described therein. Please 

reference the case number listed on all correspondence 
forwarded to this office pertaining to this . 

Case Number: 

Licensee: Joshua S. Klasinski Profession: 1512: Physician Assistant 

Mailing 4475 Streamside Court File Nbr: 8776 

Address: Sarasota, FL 34238 License Nbr: 9105912 

License Status: Suspended/Active 

Attorney: Evelyn L. Moya, Esquire Address: 2831 Ringling Blvd. 
Unit B-105 
Sarasota, FL 34237 

Phone: 941-954-3990 

Monitor: None on Record 

Supervisor: None on Record 

Appeal: N 

Discipline Imposed: Start Date End Date Comments 

Reprimand 03/04/2013 

Suspension 03/04/2013 Until such time as he undergoes an evaluation 
by the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) 

and personally appears before the Board with 

said evaluation and the Board determines that 

Respondent is safe to practice medicine within 

reasonable skill and safety. 

Compliance Record: Due Date Cmpl Date Amt Imposed Amt Paid 

Costs 1,244.10 0.00 

Fine 4,000.00 100.00 

Board Retains Jurisdiction 

Permanent Practice 
Restriction 
PRN Evaluation 

Reinstatement Appearance 

Continuing Education: 

Subject Area Due Dte Req Hrs Credit Hrs Crdt Dte 
Risk Management 03/04/2014 5.00 

PRN Professionals Resource Network, (PRN) 
P.O. Box 1020, Fernandina Beach, FL 32035-1 020 

Telephone Number: 1 (800) 888-8776; Fax Number: (904) 277-8004 

Division of 
Medical Oualiiy 

MOA 

201 204092 
Respondent Name 

S. Klasiriski 
Final Order Date: 

3/4/2013 
Today's Date: 

6/24/2013 

pkg_euf_rpt.cmply.p.dx0002L:06/24/2013 14:04:22 OND Page 1 of 2 



D2S Biblical Counseling Ministry 
Calvary Chapel Sarasota 

3800 th Parkway 
Sarasota, FL 34235 

941 .365.WORD 9673] ccsrq.cc 

Completion of Counseling 

Co u n se nselo 
Date of last session 
Date of first session 
Number of sessions 
Completion 

Mutual 
Brief specific synopsis of spiritual and/or emotional 

growth as view by counselor: 

Discipleship follow-up: 

If counselee was referred by another counselor, church, 
ministry, agency or professional, give name: 1 
ign re 0 oun or 

nature of Counselee 

Rev. 1 2/20 1 1, adapted from FFBCC Policies & Procedures Manual 

W1il12 

(Page 14 of 28) 

F#1 0.2 

Dafe 



(Page 10 of 28) 

Calvary Chapel Sarasota 
worship & the word.. tokinq it to the 

October 19, 2012 

To Whom It May Concern: 
RE: Character Reference for Josh Klasinski 

I am happy to give a positive reference for Josh. He has attended Calvary 
Chapel of Sarasota for almost three years. He has worked with our Children's 

- -—- ministry Pastor and-hasbeén very involved wittitheMerr'sFeiiowship-atthe 
Church. Josh has built strong accountable relationships with several men in 
our Church. 

Josh came to me when he had a problem regarding his present profession 
and we talked at length about it. Following my advice he completed a very 
thorough counseling course with the experienced counselors at the Church 
here. I am convinced he has handled the experience properly and will not 
have this problem again. 

We are very pleased he is part of our fellowship and will continue to trust 
him with important ministry positions in the future. 

If you have any questions please feel free to call me at 941-809-3244 
anytime. 

Pastor Carl Dixon 
Senior Pastor 
Calvary Chapel Sarasota 

k. 

State ol 8 
Keren I. Docter 
My EE 167809 
Expires 02/26/2016 

3800 27th Parkway Sarasota, FL 34235-8032 Ph. -365-WORD (9673) http://ccsrq.cc 



(Page Li of 28) 

11/22/2012 

Jackie Marcelin, MS. 

2814 th 
Ave S.E. 

Ruskiri, FL 33570 

(813)751-6713 

To whom it may concern 

I confirm that I have known Joshua Klasinski for the past year when-we both worked as 

providers at Suncoast Communit\i Health Centers;lnc. I must say I was surprised to learn that Joshua 
was terminated from his employment. I was even baffled when he explained to mêwhy he was 
released of his duties at work. At all times I have found Joshua to be dependable, 
reliable, honest and soft-spoken. I am happy to provide further information if required. 

Jackie Marcelin, MS, ARNP 

CARLOS PIGUERDA 
Notary Public, Slate of Florida 

Commtsston# EE 6978 
My expires July 7, 2014 - 

S'rATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH 
The olng was befOre 
methis by 

who Is personally known to me or who has pmducad FL 
' 

Signatum of Notaiy 

v, 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html




- 
flLED 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DEPUTY CLERK 

CLERK .AnffelSanc(ers 
STATE OF FLORIDA DATE 

BOARD OF PHARMACY - 

iN RE: APPLICATION FOR NON-RESIDENT 
PHARMACY PERMIT OF TOWN AND 
COUNTRY COMPOUNDiNG AND 
CONSULTATION SERWCES 

___________________________________________/ 

PETITION FOR HEARING NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF FACT 

COMES NOW Town and Country Compounding and Consultation Services, 

(hereinafter "Petitioner") by and through the undersigned counsel, and respectfully 

submits this petition for a hearing not involving disputed issues of material fact 

pursuant to and 120.57(2), Florida Statutes. As required by Rule 28- 

106.301, F.A.C., Petitioner states as follows: 

1. The agency affected is the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 

Tallahassee, FL 32399 (hereinafter "Board"). 

2. Petitioner is Town and Country Compounding and Consultation Services. 

For purposes of this proceeding Petitioner's address and phone number will be that 

of the undersigned counsel. 

3. On or about January 3, 2014, Petitioner received through the U.S. Mail a 

Notice of Intent to Deny its application for a Non-Resident Pharmacy Permit. A 

copy of said Notice is attached to this Petition. 

4. Petitioner's substantial interests will be affected by the Board of Pharmacy's 

Notice of Intent to deny its application. 

5. Petitioner does not contest the material fact set forth in the Notice of Intent 

to Deny. Petitioner hereby requests the opportunity to address the Board and to 

present mitigation and arguments in this matter, including but not limited to, the 



minor nature of the violation in New Jersey and its current good standing with the 

New Jersey Board of Pharmacy. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner requests that it be granted the opportunity for an 

informal hearing before the Board of Pharmacy. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been 

furnished by electronic mail and U.S. Mail to Tammy Coffins, Acting Executive 

Director, Florida Board of Pharmacy; and to David Flynn, Assistant Attorney 

General, Counsel to the Board of Pharmacy on this day of January, 2014. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Edwin A. Bayó 
Fla. Bar No. 327727 
Grossman, Furlow & Bayó 
2022-2 Raymond Diehi Road 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 
(850) 385-1314 
fax (850) 385-4240 
COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER 



FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

CLERk 

STATE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF PhARMACY 

EN RE: APPLICATION FOR NON-RESIDENT 
PHARMACY PERMIT TOWN AND COUNTRY 

AND CONSULTATiON 
SERVICES 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO DENY 

This matter came before the Board of Pharmacy (hereinafter the "Board") at a duly noticed 
public meeting held on December, 4 2013 in Gainesville, Florida. pursuant to the Applicant's 
request for license. The applicant was present. 

Applicant is a licensed pharmacy in the state of New Jersey. The applicant's license has been 
discIplined by the New Jersey Board of Pharmacy. 

The board is authorized by Section Florida Statutes, to deny an applicant that has 
had a license to practice a profession disciplined by regulatory authority. 

Therefore, pursuant to Section 456,072(2), Florida Statutes, the application fbr a non-resident 
permit is hereby DENTED. 

DONE AND ORDERED this day of .. , 2013. 

ROARI) OF PHARMACY 

Tàmmy Collii/s.. Acting ExecuLive Director 
for Albert Gakcia, Chair 



NOTICE OF RIGHT TO HEARING 

THIS NOTICE CONSTITUTES FINAL AGENCY ACTION 1E NO REQUEST FOR A 

HEARING IS RECEiVED BY THI BOARD ON OR SI I ORE f TWENT'y-I IRS1 DAY 
AFTER THE APPI S RFCFIPT OF 1111 NOTICE 1111 APPI ICANT MAY 
REQUEST A I BY FILING AN APPROPRIA1 F PETU ION W I ml 
EXECUTIVE DIREC1OR OF lilt BOARD AT 4052 BAT D CYPRESS WAY, BIN ft -04 
TALLAHASSET fl ORIDA 32399-3256 TIlt APPLICANT MAY ri:i ITION FOR A 

HEARiNG INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MA.1FRIAI FACT BEFORE AN 

ADMINISTRATIVE I.AW JUDGE. PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57 (1), FLORIDA 
STATUTES OR FOR A HI ARING NOT INVOLVING DIsPUTEI) 'S OF MATERIAL 
FACT PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57(2) FLORIDA STATUTES. 

A PETITION FOR A HEARiNG INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT 
MUST CONTAiN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.201, FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRA UVC CODE INCLUDING A STATEMI NT OF ALL DISPUTED ISSUES OF 
MATERIAL FACT. TIlE BOARD MAY REFER A PETITION TO TILE DIVISION OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE UEARINGS FOR ASSIGNMENT OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW 
JUDGE ONLY IF THE PETITION IS IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULE 
REQUIREMENTS A PETITION FOR A PROCEEDING NOT INVOLVING DESPU EU) 
ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT MUST CONTAIN INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 
28106301 FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE INCLU)ING A CONCISE STATFMFNT 
OF THE ULTIMATE FACTS ALLEGED, AS WELL AS THE RULES AND STATUTES 
WHICH ENTITLE PETITIONER TO RELIEF. 

IN AcCORDANCE WITH SECTION 120.573. FLORIDA STATUTES MEDIATION IS NOT 
AVAILABLE. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been tiirnished by 
Mait to Town and Country compounding and LLC, 

Attention Rebecca Arnold, 106 Prospect Street, Ridgewood. New Jersey 07450; by electronic 
David I) Flynn Attorney david corn , this 37J 

day of 2013. 

.ERK 

7012 305(3 00013 91349 6125 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 1 of 23) 

HEALTH 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 

Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 
Telephone (850) 488-0595 

http:llwww.doh .state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy 

NON-RESIDENT PHARMACY REGISTRATION 

05/20/2013 
ID: 20032 

FiT: 3021296 

VL: 9120b253J. 

255.00 

Type: F 

Application Type — Please choose one of the following: RECEIVED 

New Establishment ($255.00 Fee) MAY 1 7 2013 
Change of Location ($100.00 Fee) 
Change of Ownership (a new permit number will be issued) ($255.00 Fee) Flonda Board of Pharmacy 

If applicable, list existing permit number: 

List Federal Employer Identification Number: 
1. Corporate Name Telephone Number 

Town and Country Compounding and Consultation Services 201.447.2020 
2. Doing Business As (dlbla) E-Mail Addr_ess 

3. MaIling Address 
106 Prospect St 

City State Zip 
Ridgewood NJ 07450 

4. Physical Address 
Same as Mailing 

City State Zip 

5. List Prescription Department Manager (PDM) 
Name License No. 

JohnJ Herr 28R101804200 

Start Date 

April2000 
6. Contact Person Telephone Number () 

Rebecca Arnold 888.290.2244 ext 214 
7. DEA Registration Number 8. Do you have 24 hour access to patient records? 

BT8272229 XYES NO If no explain on separate sheet 
9. Please provide the name, address, telephone number, and permit number of your prescription drug 
wholesale distributor. 
Name Telephone Number Permit Number 

Cardinal Health 866.230.0778 430680 
Street Address City State Zip 

1120 Commerce Blvd Swedesboro NJ 08085 
10. Operating Hours lOa. Provide the Toll-Free Telephone number 

available six days a week for 40 hours below: 

Prescription DeDartment Hours 

Monday-Friday: Open 9:00 am Close: 6:00 om 

Saturday: Open: 9:00 am Close: 3:00 pm 

Sunday: Open: Close: 

( 800 ) 850 - 2101 

DH-MQA, 1217, 11/12 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 

Page 1 of 5 

'4 



2 of 16) 

FLORIDA BOARD OF PHARMACY 
P.O. Box 6320 

Thilahassee, FL 32314-6320 
Telephone (850) 488-0595 

http:llwww.doh.state.fl .us/mqafpharmacy 

NON-RESIDENT PHARMACY REGISTRATION 

DI-l-MQA, 1217, 11112 
FA.C. 

Page 1 of 5 

HEALTH 
Application Type — Please choose one of the following: 

X New Establishment ($255.00 Fee) — Change of Location ($100.00 Fee) — Change of Ownership (a new permit number will be issued) ($255.00 Fee) 

If applicable, list existing pen-nit number 

List Federal Employer identification Number: 
1. Corporate Name Telephone Number 

Town and Country Compounding and Consultation Services, LLcI 201.447.2020 

2. Doing Business As (dibia) E-Mail Address 

Town and Country Compounding and Consultation Services 
3. MailIng Address 

106 Prospect St 
City State Zip 

Ridgewood 07450 

4. Physical Address 
Same as Mailing 

City State 

5. List Prescription Department Manager (PDM) 
Name License No. Start Date Signature 

John J Herr 28R 101 804200 April 2000 
6. Contact Person Telephone Number 

Rebecca Arnold 886.290.2244 ext 214 
7. DEA Registration Number 8. Do you have 24 hour access to patient-records? 

BT8272229 If no explain on separate sheet 
9. Please -provide the name, address, telephone number, and permit number of your prescription drug 
wholesale distributor. 
Name Telephone Number Permit Number 

Cardinal Health 866.230.0778 430680 
Street Address City State Zip 

1120 Commerce Blvd Swedesboro NJ 08085 
10. Operating Hours lOs. Provide the Toll-Free Telephone number 

available six days.a week for 40 hours below: 

Prescription Department Hours 

Monday-Friday: Open 9:00 am Close: 6:00 pm 

Saturday: Open: 9:00 am Close: 3:00 pm 

Sunday: Open: Close: 

( 800 ) 
850 - 2101 



(Page 2 of 23) 

II. Ownership Information 

a. Type of Ownership: 

_____Individual _____Corporation _____Partnership 

X Other: LLC 

NOTE: IF CORPORATION OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP YOU MUST INCLUDE WITH YOUR APPLICATiON A COPY OF THE ARTICLES OF 

INCORPORATION ON FILE WiTH THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S OFFICE WHERE THE PHARMACY IS LOCATED. 

b. Are the applicants, officers, directors, shareholders, members and partners over the age of ? 
Yes X No 

c. List each person having an ownership interest of 5 percent or greater and any person who, directly or 
indirectly. manaaes. oversees, or controls the operation of the applicant Attach aseDarate sheet if . 

OwneriOfficer-Title Date of Birth Mailing Address % of Ownership 

John J Herr / Manager 05/18/1961 152 Vista Terrace 100 % 

Pompton Lakes, NJ 07442 

Pursuant to Section 456.0635(2), Florida Statutes, questions 12 through 18 must be answered. If you 
answer yes to any of the following questions, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details and 

submit copies of supporting documentation. 
12. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, 
a felony under Chapter 409, Chapter 817, or Chapter 893, Florida Statutes; or 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 or 42 

U.S.C. ss.1395-1396? (If no, do not answer 13.) 

(You must include all misdemeanors and felonies, even it adjudication was 
withheld by the court, so that you would not have a record of conviction. 

Yes 

__________ 

No X Driving under the influence or driving while impaired is a minor traffic 

offense for the purposes of this question.) 

13. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the first or second degree, has it been more than 15 years from the 
date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? 

Yes No N/A 

13a. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree, has it been more than 10 years from the date of 

the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent probation? (This question does not apply to 
felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida . 
Yes No N/A 

I 3b. If "yes" to 12, for the felonies of the third degree under Section 893.1 3(6)(a), Florida Statutes, 
has it been more than 5 years from the date of the plea, sentence and completion of any subsequent 
probation? 

Yes______ No______ N/A 

DH-MOA, 1217 11/12 Page 2 of 5 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 



(Page 3 of 16) 

13c. If "yes" to 12, has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated 
person of the applicant successfully completed a drug court program that resulted in the plea for the 
felony offense being withdrawn or the charges dismissed? (If "yes", please provide supporting 
documentation). 

Yes No______ N/A 

14. I have been provided and read the statement from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
regarding sharing, retention, privacy and right to challenge incorrect criminal history records and the 
"Privacy Statement" document from the Federal Bureau of Investigation. (Found on Page 7 of 'this 
application.) 

X No 
15. Has the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid Program pursuant to Section 
409.913, Florida Statutes? (If no, do not answer 16.) 

Yes No X 

16. If the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant has been terminated, has the applicant been reinstated and in good standing with the Florida 
Medicaid Program for the most recent five years? 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 
Yes No N/A 

17. the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant ever been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state 
or federal government, from any other state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare program? 
(If no, do not answer 18 and 19) 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet prov;thng accurate details) 
Yes No 

18. Has the applicant been in good standing wIth a state Medicaid program or the federal Medicare 
prqgram for the most recent five years? 

(If yes, explain on a separate sheet providino accurate details) 
Yes A No 

19. Did the termination occur at least 20 years prior to the date of this 
a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Yes No N/A 

20. Are you currently registered or permitted in any other states? If yes, provide the state, permit type, 
and permit number for each permit. Attach a separate sheet if . 
Yes X No 

State Permit Type Permit Number 
New York Pharmacy 031267 
Delaware Pharmacy A90000981 
Maryland Pharmacy P05724 

21. Has the applicant, affiliated persons, partners, officer, directors, or PDM or Consultant Pharmacist of 
Record ever owned a pharmacy? If yes, provide the name of the pharmacy, the state where the 
pharmacy is located and the status of the pharmacy. Attach a separate sheet if necessary. 

DH-MQA, 1217. 11/12 Page 3 of 5 
Rule F.AC. 



(Page 4 of 23) 

Yes 

__________ 

No X (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

24. Is the applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing employee, or affiliated person of the 
applicant currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 
Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities? 

Yes______ No X 

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED OR YOUR APPUCATION WILL BE RETURNED 

Section 456.013(1), F.S., requires that applicants supplement their applications as needed to reflect any material change in any 

circumstances or conditions stated in the application, which takes place between the initial filing of the application and the final grant or 

denial of the license, which might affect the decision of the department. 

I certify that the statements contained in this application are true, complete, and correct and I agree that said statements shall form the 

basis of my application and I do authorize the Florida Board of Pharmacy to make any investigations that they deem appropriate and to 

secure any additional information concerning me, and I further authorize them to furnish any information they may have or have in the 

future concerning me to any person, corporation, institution, association, board, or any municipal, county, state, or federal governmental 
agencies or units, and I understand according to the Florida Board of Pharmacy Statutes that a Pharmacy Permit may be revoked or 

suspended for presenting any false, fraudulent, or forged statement, certificate, diploma, or other thing, in connection with an application 

for a license or permit, as set forth in Section 465.01 5(2)(a), ES. 

Under penalty of perjury I have read the foregoing document and that the facts stated in it are true. I recognize that providing false 
information may I 'action against my license or criminal penalties. 

SIGNATURE TITLE President DATE 05/16/2013 

DH-MQA, 1217, 11/12 Page 4 of 5 
Rule 64B16-28.100, F.A.C. 

Yes X No 

_____________(If 

yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

Town & Country Apothecary in Ridgewood, NJ. Sold the pharmacy 3 years ago 

Pharmacy Name State Status 

Town & Country Apothecary NJ Sold to another R Ph 

22. Has any disciplinary action ever been taken against any license, permit or registration issued to the 
applicant, affiliated persons, officers, directors or POM in this state or any ? 
Yes 

__________ 

No X (If yes, explain on a separate sheet providing accurate details) 

23. Is there any other permit issued by the Florida Department of Health located at the physical location 
address on this aoolication? 



(Page 1 of 1) 

Page 1 of 1 

Nith, Heidi 

From: Hemalika Gupta hgupta©licenselogix.comj 

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2013 3:51 PM 

To: Nitti, Heidi 

Cc: Shayna Desai 

Subject: Re: Town and Country Compounding and Consultation Services 

Heidi, 

Pursuant to our conversation the IN is 113679270. You should be receiving the Letter from NJ. 

Thanks for all your efforts. 

Best, 

Hema 

Hemalika Gupta 
I Client Fulfillment 

hgupta©licenselogix.com 
I 

www.licenselogix com 

150 Grand St, 4th Floor I White Plains, NY 10601 
Office: 800.292.0909 x304 Fax: 212.672.1105 

?( X 

9/26/2013 



(Page 10 ot 16) 

Joanne Boyer, R.Ph. 
Division of Consumer Affairs 
Board of?hannacy 
124 Halsey St. 6th floor 
Newark, NJ 07102 

January 16,2011 

Dear Ms. Boyer. 

I apologize for the delay in responding, my wife was hospitalized for an extended period 
oftime and I am now catching up with all of my work. Mr. Lake did the re-inspection of 
our pharmacy and as always was very professional and courteous to the staE 

I am asking that the board consider my explanation on two of the citations before 
rendering its final decision. 

13:39-! .1(a) I am not sure why this is listed, we only have two pharmacists who prepare 
sterile products in the clean room and have both received formal training. We do not use 
any of our Certified Pharmacy Technicians to prepare stenie products. The certificates 
arc on display in the waiting area of the pharmacy. I did show these to Mr. Lake, and 
have provided photocopies for the board's review, so I can only assume this was an 
oversight. 

1.24 This was a re-inspection and when Ioriglnally opened the pharmacy the 
board approved the ledge in the anteroom and instructed that I paint it with the same 
special epoxy paint that was used on the walls. Mr. Lake made a suggestion that I i 
plexi-glass so that the 6 inch ledge did not protrude and 1 would not be in violation in the 
future. The reason we did not do this when we opened was because we are below ground 
level and the ledge provides a means of egress from the anteroom in case of emergency, 
If we were to block this off as suggested we would be in violation of fire codes. We have 
been in operation in this facility for over eight years now and have had no problems in 
cleaning and surface testing of any areas in the ante room or clean room. 



(Page 11 of 16) 

EveTything else has already been corrected and 1 appreciate the Boards time in 
considering ray explanation on these two points and I again apologize for the delay in 

responding. 



(Page 6 of 16) 

New Jersey Office of the Aflorney Genera! 

• 

Time 

lime doparted: 

Name oc 1 

• 

Is,- 

Mama End number 

• 

ha noted:________________________________________ 

• 

a 

1 2- ThitH 
- 

/ 

1 ,9</&: '(e))- 
115 /N / 

- 

A 

1: 

. 

This is to that been during tftI3 Inspection and 
concur with the as noted, with It any. 



(Page 7 of 16) 

New Jersey OffIce of the Attorney 
ot Consumer Aft&rs 

Board of Pharmacy 
Quality Assurance 

W 

7 

fl,c or 
forthcfr 

.zid my the have been 

sqwiicd tcu or been pI.ced 

fot propcrdli. be of the 
i.uc by the 

It is 
youc 

fls Cray you p1.ce your 
Thc will Oclete Rfl7 ror Vt 



 

 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 
 
 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 
 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all 

pages have been removed. 
 
 
 

SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.   
 

456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 
furnished.— 

10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents 
maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records shall not be available to the public as part of the record of investigation for and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 
 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


(Page 4 of 16) 

IDetaware PAGE 1 

Jirst State 

I., JEFFREY W. SECREZ'ARY OF STATE OF THE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY cERrrrl THE !LTTACØED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF "TOWN & COUNTRY 

COKE'QUJ)ING AND CONSUIiTATION SERVICES, L. L. C.", FILED IN THIS 

OFFICE ON THE TWENTY- THIRD DAY OF iJVNE, A. D. 2010, AT 9:03 

4839807 8100 

100681494 
at earp d.lawara. gvv/authvnr. 

W Duflock. ursijie 
AUTHE nON: 8072314 

DATE: 06-2310 



(Page 5 of 16> 

Stata at t&awara 
S.er.tn.rS' af 

flivlaicn of 
Delivex.d 11:16 V4 05/23/2010 

09:03 JIN 06/23/2010 
SRt' 100681494 — 4839807 FUE 

CERTiFICATE OF FORMATION 
OF 

TOWN & COIJNTRY COMPOUNDING AND CONSULTATION SERVICES, LL.C. 

Ibis Certificate of of TOWN & COUNTRY COMPOUNDING AND 

CONSULTATION SERVICES, LL.C. (the "Company") is bcing fried by the undersigned 

authorized person to form a limited liability company uralci the Delaware Limited Liability 

Company Act, 6 cl C § l&-l01 et seq (the 

I Name The name of the limited liability company formed hereby is TOWN & 

COUNTRY COMPOUNDING AND CONSULTATION SERVICES, L.L.C 

2 Registered Office. The address of the registered olfioc of thc Company in the State of 

Delaware is Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centen'ifle Road. Suite 400. Wilmington, 

County of New Castle, Deiuwase 19808 

3. Ihe name and address of the registered agent for service of process 

on the Company its the State of Delaware, required to be maintained by Section 18-104 of the 

Act, are Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, County 

of New Castle, Delaware 19808. 

4 Series Limited Liability Company The Company is a series limited liability company 

Separate and distinct records shalt be maintained fot each such series and the assets associated 

with each such series shall be held in such separate and distinct records (directly or indirectly, 

including thmugh a nominee or otherwise) and aceoim4ed for in such separate and distinct 

records separately horn the other assets of he Company, ox any other series thcxerf Assets 

associated with a series may be held directly or indirectly, induding in the ine of such series, 

in the name of the Company. through a nominee oi otherwise Notice is hereby given that the 

debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurrtd contracted for or otherwise existing 

with respect to a particalar series shall be enforceable against the assets of such athes only, 

and not against the assets of the Company generally or any other series and none 

of the debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses incurred, contracted for or otherwise 
existing with respect to the Conrp3my generally or any other series thereof shall be 

enforceable ngaln5t the assets of such series. 

IN WIrNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned authorized person has cxecutcd this 

Certificate of Formation in accordance with Section 18-204 of the Act 

Name: Richard I Laxbb 
hUe: Authorized Person 



The 2012 Florida Statutes 

Chapter 465 Pharmacy 

465.00 1 Short Title. 
465.002 Legislative findings; intent. 
465.003 Definitions. 
465.004 Board of Pharmacy. 
465.005 Authority to make rules. 
465.006 Disposition of fees; expenditures. 
465.007 Licensure by examination. 
465.0075 Licensure by endorsement; requirements; fee. 
465.008 Renewal of license. 
465.009 Continuing professional pharmaceutical education. 
465.0 12 Reactivation of license; continuing education. 
465.0125 Consultant pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees; 
responsibilities; rules. 
465.0126 Nuclear pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees. 
465.0 13 Registration of pharmacy interns. 
465.014 Pharmacy technician. 
465.0 15 Violations and penalties. 
465.0155 Standards of practice. 
465.0156 Registration of nonresident pharmacies. 
465.016 Disciplinary actions. 
465.0161 Distribution of medicinal drugs without a permit. 
465.0 17 Authority to inspect; disposal. 
465.018 Community pharmacies; permits. 
465.0181 Community pharmacy permit required to dispense Schedule II or 
Schedule III controlled substances. 
465.019 Institutional pharmacies; permits. 
465.0193 Nuclear pharmacy permits. 
465.0196 Special pharmacy permits. 
465.0197 Internet pharmacy permits. 
465.022 Pharmacies; general requirements; fees. 
465.023 Pharmacy permittee; disciplinary action. 
465.0235 Automated pharmacy systems used by long-term care facilities, 
hospices, or state correctional institutions. 
465.024 Promoting sale of certain drugs prohibited. 
465.0244 Information disclosure. 
465.025 Substitution of drugs. 
465.0251 Generic drugs; removal from formulary under specified circumstances. 
465.0255 Expiration date of medicinal drugs; display; related use and storage 
instructions. 
465.026 Filling of certain prescriptions. 
465.0265 Centralized prescription filling. 
465.0266 Common database. 
465.027 Exceptions. 
465.0275 Emergency prescription refill. 
465.0276 Dispensing practitioner. 
465.035 Dispensing of medicinal drugs pursuant to facsimile of prescription. 



465.185 Rebates prohibited; penalties. 
465.186 Pharmacist's order for medicinal drugs; dispensing procedure; 
development of formulary. 
465.187 Sale of medicinal drugs. 
465.188 Medicaid audits of pharmacies. 
465.189 Administration of vaccines and epinephrine autoinjection. 
465.1901 Practice of orthotics and pedorthics. 

465.001 Short Title.—This chapter shall be known as the "Florida Pharmacy Act." 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.002 Legislative findings; intent.—The Legislature finds that the practice of 
pharmacy is a learned profession. The sole legislative purpose for enacting this 
chapter is to ensure that every pharmacist practicing in this state and every 
pharmacy meet minimum requirements for safe practice. It is the legislative intent 
that pharmacists who fall below minimum competency or who otherwise present a 

danger to the public shall be prohibited from practicing in this state. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 1, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.003 Definitions.—As used in this chapter, the term: 
(1)"Administration" means the obtaining and giving of a single dose of medicinal 

drugs by a legally authorized person to a patient for her or his consumption. 
(2)"Board" means the Board of Pharmacy. 
(3)"Consultant pharmacist" means a pharmacist licensed by the department and 

certified as a consultant pharmacist pursuant to s. 465.0125. 
(4)"Data communication device" means an electronic device that receives 

electronic information from one source and transmits or routes it to another, 
including, but not limited to, any such bridge, router, switch, or gateway. 

(5)"Department" means the Department of Health. 
(6)"Dispense" means the transfer of possession of one or more doses of a 

medicinal drug by a pharmacist to the ultimate consumer or her or his agent. As an 
element of dispensing, the pharmacist shall, prior to the actual physical transfer, 
interpret and assess the prescription order for potential adverse reactions, 
interactions, and dosage regimen she or he deems appropriate in the exercise of her 
or his professional judgment, and the pharmacist shall certify that the medicinal drug 
called for by the prescription is ready for transfer. The pharmacist shall also provide 
counseling on proper drug usage, either orally or in writing, if in the exercise of her 
or his professional judgment counseling is necessary. The actual sales transaction 
and delivery of such drug shall not be considered dispensing. The administration 
shall not be considered dispensing. 

(7)"Institutional formulary system" means a method whereby the medical staff 
evaluates, appraises, and selects those medicinal drugs or proprietary preparations 
which in the medical staff's clinical judgment are most useful in patient care, and 
which are available for dispensing by a practicing pharmacist in a Class II 
institutional pharmacy. 

(8)"Medicinal drugs" or "drugs" means those substances or preparations commonly 
known as "prescription" or "legend" drugs which are required by federal or state law 
to be dispensed only on a prescription, but shall not include patents or proprietary 
preparations as hereafter defined. 



(9)"Patent or proprietary preparation" means a medicine in its unbroken, original 
package which is sold to the public by, or under the authority of, the manufacturer or 
primary distributor thereof and which is not misbranded under the provisions of the 
Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act. 

(1O)"Pharmacist" means any person licensed pursuant to this chapter to practice 
the profession of pharmacy. 

(11)(a)"Pharmacy" includes a community pharmacy, an institutional pharmacy, a 

nuclear pharmacy, a special pharmacy, and an Internet pharmacy. 
1.The term "community pharmacy" includes every location where medicinal drugs 

are compounded, dispensed, stored, or sold or where prescriptions are filled or 
dispensed on an outpatient basis. 

2.The term "institutional pharmacy" includes every location in a hospital, clinic, 
nursing home, dispensary, sanitarium, extended care facility, or other facility, 
hereinafter referred to as "health care institutions," where medicinal drugs are 
compounded, dispensed, stored, or sold. 

3.The term "nuclear pharmacy" includes every location where radioactive drugs 
and chemicals within the classification of medicinal drugs are compounded, 
dispensed, stored, or sold. The term "nuclear pharmacy" does not include hospitals 
licensed under chapter 395 or the nuclear medicine facilities of such hospitals. 

4.The term "special pharmacy" includes every location where medicinal drugs are 
compounded, dispensed, stored, or sold if such locations are not otherwise defined in 
this subsection. 

5.The term "Internet pharmacy" includes locations not otherwise licensed or issued 
a permit under this chapter, within or outside this state, which use the Internet to 
communicate with or obtain information from consumers in this state and use such 
communication or information to fill or refill prescriptions or to dispense, distribute, 
or otherwise engage in the practice of pharmacy in this state. Any act described in 
this definition constitutes the practice of pharmacy as defined in subsection (13). 

(b)The pharmacy department of any permittee shall be considered closed 
whenever a Florida licensed pharmacist is not present and on duty. The term "not 
present and on duty" shall not be construed to prevent a pharmacist from exiting the 
prescription department for the purposes of consulting or responding to inquiries or 
providing assistance to patients or customers, attending to personal hygiene needs, 
or performing any other function for which the pharmacist is responsible, provided 
that such activities are conducted in a manner consistent with the pharmacist's 
responsibility to provide pharmacy services. 

(12)"Pharmacy intern" means a person who is currently registered in, and 
attending, a duly accredited college or school of pharmacy, or who is a graduate of 
such a school or college of pharmacy, and who is duly and properly registered with 
the department as provided for under its rules. 

(13)"Practice of the profession of pharmacy" includes compounding, dispensing, 
and consulting concerning contents, therapeutic values, and uses of any medicinal 
drug; consulting concerning therapeutic values and interactions of patent or 
proprietary preparations, whether pursuant to prescriptions or in the absence and 
entirely independent of such prescriptions or orders; and other pharmaceutical 
services. For purposes of this subsection, "other pharmaceutical services" means the 
monitoring of the patient's drug therapy and assisting the patient in the 
management of his or her drug therapy, and includes review of the patient's drug 
therapy and communication with the patient's prescribing health care provider as 
licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466, or similar 
statutory provision in another jurisdiction, or such provider's agent or such other 
persons as specifically authorized by the patient, regarding the drug therapy. 
However, nothing in this subsection may be interpreted to permit an alteration of a 



prescriber's directions, the diagnosis or treatment of any disease, the initiation of 
any drug therapy, the practice of medicine, or the practice of osteopathic medicine, 
unless otherwise permitted by law. "Practice of the profession of pharmacy" also 
includes any other act, service, operation, research, or transaction incidental to, or 
forming a part of, any of the foregoing acts, requiring, involving, or employing the 
science or art of any branch of the pharmaceutical profession, study, or training, and 
shall expressly permit a pharmacist to transmit information from persons authorized 
to prescribe medicinal drugs to their patients. The practice of the profession of 
pharmacy also includes the administration of vaccines to adults pursuant to s. 
465. 189. 

(14)"Prescription" includes any order for drugs or medicinal supplies written or 
transmitted by any means of communication by a duly licensed practitioner 
authorized by the laws of the state to prescribe such drugs or medicinal supplies and 
intended to be dispensed by a pharmacist. The term also includes an orally 
transmitted order by the lawfully designated agent of such practitioner. The term 
also includes an order written or transmitted by a practitioner licensed to practice in 
a jurisdiction other than this state, but only if the pharmacist called upon to dispense 
such order determines, in the exercise of her or his professional judgment, that the 
order is valid and necessary for the treatment of a chronic or recurrent illness. The 
term "prescription" also includes a pharmacist's order for a product selected from the 
formulary created pursuant to s. 465.186. Prescriptions may be retained in written 
form or the pharmacist may cause them to be recorded in a data processing system, 
provided that such order can be produced in printed form upon lawful request. 

(15)"Nuclear pharmacist" means a pharmacist licensed by the department and 
certified as a nuclear pharmacist pursuant to s. 465.0126. 

(16)"Centralized prescription filling" means the filling of a prescription by one 
pharmacy upon request by another pharmacy to fill or refill the prescription. The 
term includes the performance by one pharmacy for another pharmacy of other 
pharmacy duties such as drug utilization review, therapeutic drug utilization review, 
claims adjudication, and the obtaining of refill authorizations. 

(17)"Automated pharmacy system" means a mechanical system that delivers 
prescription drugs received from a Florida licensed pharmacy and maintains related 
transaction information. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; s. 322, ch. 81-259; ss. 14, 15, ch. 81-302; ss. 2, 3, 
ch. 81-318; ss. 1, 2, ch. 82-179; s. 1, ch. 83-101; s. 36, ch. 83-216; s. 3, ch. 83- 
265; s. 29, ch. 83-329; s. 1, ch. 85-35; ss. 2, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 1, ch. 88-172; 
s. 1, ch. 89-77; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 123, ch. 94- 
218; s. 239, ch. 97-103; s. 87, ch. 97-264; s. 118, ch. 99-397; s. 1, ch. 2002-182; 
s. 1, ch. 2004-25; s. 1, ch. 2004-387; s. 2, ch. 2007-152; s. 2, ch. 2012-60. 

465.004 Board of Pharmacy.— 
(1)The Board of Pharmacy is created within the department and shall consist of 

nine members to be appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate. 
(2)Seven members of the board must be licensed pharmacists who are residents of 

this state and who have been engaged in the practice of the profession of pharmacy 
in this state for at least 4 years and, to the extent practicable, represent the various 
pharmacy practice settings. Of the pharmacist members, one must be currently 
engaged in the practice of pharmacy in a community pharmacy, one must be 
currently engaged in the practice of pharmacy in a Class II institutional pharmacy or 
a Modified Class II institutional pharmacy, and five shall be pharmacists licensed in 
this state irrespective of practice setting. The remaining two members must be 
residents of the state who have never been licensed as pharmacists and who are in 



no way connected with the practice of the profession of pharmacy. No person may be 
appointed as a consumer member who is in any way connected with a drug 
manufacturer or wholesaler. At least one member of the board must be 60 years of 
age or older. 

(3)As the terms of the members expire, the Governor shall appoint successors for 
terms of 4 years, and such members shall serve until their successors are appointed. 

(4)All provisions of chapter 456 relating to activities of the board shall apply. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 3, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 16, 
ch. 87-172; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 124, ch. 94- 
218; s. 88, ch. 97-264; s. 67, ch. 98-166; s. 124, ch. 2000-160. 

465.00 5Authority to make rules.—The Board of Pharmacy has authority to adopt 
rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to implement the provisions of this 
chapter conferring duties upon it. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 4, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; 5. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 126, ch. 98-200. 

465.006 Disposition of fees; expenditures.—All moneys received under this chapter 
shall be deposited and expended pursuant to the provisions of s. 456.025. All 
expenditures for duties of the board authorized by this chapter shall be paid upon 
presentation of vouchers approved by the executive director of the board. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 68, ch. 98-166; s. 125, ch. 2000- 
160. 

465.007 Licensure by examination.— 
(1)Any person desiring to be licensed as a pharmacist shall apply to the 

department to take the licensure examination. The department shall examine each 
applicant who the board certifies has: 

(a)Completed the application form and remitted an examination fee set by the 
board not to exceed $100 plus the actual per applicant cost to the department for 
purchase of portions of the examination from the National Association of Boards of 
Pharmacy or a similar national organization. The fees authorized under this section 
shall be established in sufficient amounts to cover administrative costs. 

(b)Submitted satisfactory proof that she or he is not less than 18 years of age and: 
1.Is a recipient of a degree from a school or college of pharmacy accredited by an 

accrediting agency recognized and approved by the United States Office of 
Education; or 

2.Is a graduate of a 4-year undergraduate pharmacy program of a school or 
college of pharmacy located outside the United States, has demonstrated proficiency 
in English by passing both the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL) and 
the Test of Spoken English (TSE), has passed the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 
Equivalency Examination that is approved by rule of the board, and has completed a 

minimum of 500 hours in a supervised work activity program within this state under 
the supervision of a pharmacist licensed by the department, which program is 
approved by the board. 

(c)Submitted satisfactory proof that she or he has completed an internship 
program approved by the board. No such board-approved program shall exceed 
2,080 hours, all of which may be obtained prior to graduation. 

(2)The department may permit an applicant who has satisfied all requirements of 
subsection (1), except those relating to age or the internship program, to take the 
written examination, but the passing of the examination shall confer no rights or 



privileges upon the applicant in connection with the practice of pharmacy in this 
state. 

(3)Except as provided in subsection (2), the department shall issue a license to 
practice pharmacy to any applicant who successfully completes the examination in 
accordance with this section. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 13, 15, 23, 25, 30, 34, 62, ch. 80-406; ss. 2, 3, 
ch. 81-318; s. 30, ch. 83-329; ss. 5, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 13, ch. 88-205; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 240, ch. 97-103. 

465.0075 Licensure by endorsement; requirements; fee.— 
(1)The department shall issue a license by endorsement to any applicant who 

applies to the department and remits a nonrefundable fee of not more than $100, as 
set by the board, and whom the board certifies: 

(a)Has met the qualifications for licensure in s. 465.007(1)(b) and (c); 
(b)Has obtained a passing score, as established by rule of the board, on the 

licensure examination of the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy or a similar 
nationally recognized examination, if the board certifies that the applicant has taken 
the required examination; 

(c)1.Has submitted evidence of the active licensed practice of pharmacy, including 
practice in community or public health by persons employed by a governmental 
entity, in another jurisdiction for at least 2 of the immediately preceding 5 years or 
evidence of successful completion of board-approved postgraduate training or a 

board-approved clinical competency examination within the year immediately 
preceding application for licensure; or 

2.Has completed an internship meeting the requirements of s. 465.007(1)(c) 
within the 2 years immediately preceding application; and 

(d)Has obtained a passing score on the pharmacy jurisprudence portions of the 
licensure examination, as required by board rule. 

(2)An applicant licensed in another state for a period in excess of 2 years from the 
date of application for licensure in this state shall submit a total of at least 30 hours 
of board-approved continuing education for the 2 calendar years immediately 
preceding application. 

(3)The department may not issue a license by endorsement to any applicant who 
is under investigation in any jurisdiction for an act or offense that would constitute a 

violation of this chapter until the investigation is complete, at which time the 
provisions of s. 465.0 16 apply. 

(4)The department may not issue a license by endorsement to any applicant whose 
license to practice pharmacy has been suspended or revoked in another state or who 
is currently the subject of any disciplinary proceeding in another state. 
History.—s. 1, ch. 2001-166; s. 1, ch. 2008-216. 

465.008 Renewal of license.— 
(1)The department shall renew a license upon receipt of the renewal application, 

verification of compliance with s. 465.009, and receipt of a fee set by the board not 
to exceed $250. 

(2)The department shall adopt rules establishing a procedure for the biennial 
renewal of licenses. 

(3)Any person licensed under this chapter for 50 years or more is exempt from the 
payment of the renewal or delinquent fee, and the department shall issue a lifetime 
license to such a person. 





licenses. The board shall prescribe by rule an application fee for inactive status, a 

renewal fee for inactive status, a delinquency fee, and a fee for the reactivation of a 

license. None of these fees may exceed the biennial renewal fee established by the 
board for an active license. The department may not reactivate a license unless the 
inactive or delinquent licensee has paid any applicable biennial renewal or 
delinquency fee, or both, and a reactivation fee. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; s. 323, ch. 81-259; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 2, 30, 
ch. 82-179; s. 3, ch. 83-265; ss. 8, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 8, ch. 90-341; s. 59, ch. 
91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 179, ch. 94-119. 

465.0125 Consultant pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees; responsibilities; 
rules.— 

(1)The department shall issue or renew a consultant pharmacist license upon 
receipt of an initial or renewal application which conforms to the requirements for 
consultant pharmacist initial licensure or renewal as promulgated by the board by 
rule and a fee set by the board not to exceed $250. The consultant pharmacist shall 
be responsible for maintaining all drug records required by law and for establishing 
drug handling procedures for the safe handling and storage of drugs. The consultant 
pharmacist may also be responsible for ordering and evaluating any laboratory or 
clinical testing when, in the judgment of the consultant pharmacist, such activity is 
necessary for the proper performance of the consultant pharmacist's responsibilities. 
Such laboratory or clinical testing may be ordered only with regard to patients 
residing in a nursing home facility, and then only when authorized by the medical 
director of the nursing home facility. The consultant pharmacist must have 
completed such additional training and demonstrate such additional qualifications in 
the practice of institutional pharmacy as shall be required by the board in addition to 
licensure as a registered pharmacist. 

(2)Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (1), a consultant pharmacist or a 

doctor of pharmacy licensed in this state may also be responsible for ordering and 
evaluating any laboratory or clinical testing for persons under the care of a licensed 
home health agency when, in the judgment of the consultant pharmacist or doctor of 
pharmacy, such activity is necessary for the proper performance of his or her 
responsibilities and only when authorized by a practitioner licensed under chapter 
458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466. In order for the consultant 
pharmacist or doctor of pharmacy to qualify and accept this authority, he or she 
must receive 3 hours of continuing education relating to laboratory and clinical 
testing as established by the board. 

(3)The board shall promulgate rules necessary to implement and administer this 
section. 
History.—s. 31, ch. 83-329; s. 1, ch. 85-65; ss. 9, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91- 
137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 1, ch. 93-231; s. 89, ch. 97-264. 

465.0126 Nuclear pharmacist license; application, renewal, fees.—The department 
shall issue or renew a nuclear pharmacist license upon receipt of an initial or renewal 
application which conforms to the requirements for nuclear pharmacist initial 
licensure or biennial renewal as established by the board by rule and receipt of a fee 
established by the board by rule not to exceed $250, which fee shall be in addition to 
the initial licensure or biennial renewal fee for pharmacists. The nuclear pharmacist 
shall be responsible for the compounding and the dispensing of nuclear 
pharmaceuticals, for maintaining all drug records required by law, for establishing 
drug handling procedures for the safe handling and storage of radiopharmaceuticals 
and medicinal drugs, for providing the security of the prescription department, and 





program that is approved by the board may be placed in a pharmacy for the purpose 
of obtaining practical training. A pharmacy technician student shall wear 
identification that indicates his or her student status when performing the functions 
of a pharmacy technician, and registration under this section is not required. 

(5)Notwithstanding the requirements of this section or any other provision of law, 
a person who is licensed by the state as a pharmacy intern may be employed as a 

registered pharmacy technician without paying a registration fee or filing an 
application with the board to register as a pharmacy technician. 

(6)As a condition of registration renewal, a registered pharmacy technician shall 
complete 20 hours biennially of continuing education courses approved by the board 
or the Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education, of which 4 hours must be via 
live presentation and 2 hours must be related to the prevention of medication errors 
and pharmacy law. 

(7)The board shall adopt rules that require each registration issued by the board 
under this section to be displayed in such a manner as to make it available to the 
public and to facilitate inspection by the department. The board may adopt other 
rules as necessary to administer this section. 

(8)If the board finds that an applicant for registration as a pharmacy technician or 
that a registered pharmacy technician has committed an act that constitutes grounds 
for discipline as set forth in s. 456.072(1) or has committed an act that constitutes 
grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary action as set forth in this chapter, 
including an act that constitutes a substantial violation of s. 456.072(1) or a violation 
of this chapter which occurred before the applicant or registrant was registered as a 

pharmacy technician, the board may enter an order imposing any of the penalties 
specified in s. 456.072(2) against the applicant or registrant. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 10, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 

59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 242, ch. 97-103; s. 192, ch. 
97-264; s. 120, ch. 99-397; ss. 2, 3, 4, ch. 2008-216. 

465.015 Violations and penalties.— 
(1)It is unlawful for any person to own, operate, maintain, open, establish, 

conduct, or have charge of, either alone or with another person or persons, a 

pharmacy: 
(a)Which is not registered under the provisions of this chapter. 
(b)In which a person not licensed as a pharmacist in this state or not registered as 

an intern in this state or in which an intern who is not acting under the direct and 
immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist fills, compounds, or 
dispenses any prescription or dispenses medicinal drugs. 

(2)It is unlawful for any person: 
(a)To make a false or fraudulent statement, either for herself or himself or for 

another person, in any application, affidavit, or statement presented to the board or 
in any proceeding before the board. 

(b)To fill, compound, or dispense prescriptions or to dispense medicinal drugs if 
such person does not hold an active license as a pharmacist in this state, is not 
registered as an intern in this state, or is an intern not acting under the direct and 
immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist. 

(c)To sell or dispense drugs as defined in s. 465.003(8) without first being 
furnished with a prescription. 

(d)To sell samples or complimentary packages of drug products. 
(3)It is unlawful for any pharmacist to knowingly fail to report to the sheriff or 

other chief law enforcement agency of the county where the pharmacy is located 
within 24 hours after learning of any instance in which a person obtained or 



attempted to obtain a controlled substance, as defined in s. 893.02, or at the close 
of business on the next business day, whichever is later, that the pharmacist knew 
or believed was obtained or attempted to be obtained through fraudulent methods or 
representations from the pharmacy at which the pharmacist practiced pharmacy. Any 
pharmacist who knowingly fails to make such a report within 24 hours after learning 
of the fraud or attempted fraud or at the close of business on the next business day, 
whichever is later, commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. A sufficient report of the fraudulent obtaining 
of controlled substances under this subsection must contain, at a minimum, a copy 
of the prescription used or presented and a narrative, including all information 
available to the pharmacist concerning the transaction, such as the name and 
telephone number of the prescribing physician; the name, description, and any 
personal identification information pertaining to the person who presented the 
prescription; and all other material information, such as photographic or video 
surveillance of the transaction. 

(4)(a)It is unlawful for any person other than a pharmacist licensed under this 
chapter to use the title "pharmacist" or "druggist" or otherwise lead the public to 
believe that she or he is engaged in the practice of pharmacy. 

(b)It is unlawful for any person other than an owner of a pharmacy registered 
under this chapter to display any sign or to take any other action that would lead the 
public to believe that such person is engaged in the business of compounding, 
dispensing, or retailing any medicinal drugs. This paragraph shall not preclude a 

person not licensed as a pharmacist from owning a pharmacy. 
(c)It is unlawful for a person, firm, or corporation that is not licensed or registered 

under this chapter to: 
1.Use in a trade name, sign, letter, or advertisement any term, including "drug," 

"pharmacy," "prescription drugs," "Rx," or "apothecary," which implies that the 
person, firm, or corporation is licensed or registered to practice pharmacy in this 
state. 

2.Hold himself or herself out to others as a person, firm, or corporation licensed or 
registered to practice pharmacy in this state. 

(d)It is unlawful for a person who is not registered as a pharmacy technician under 
this chapter or who is not otherwise exempt from the requirement to register as a 

pharmacy technician, to perform the functions of a registered pharmacy technician, 
or hold himself or herself out to others as a person who is registered to perform the 
functions of a registered pharmacy technician in this state. 

(5)Any person who violates any provision of subsection (1) or subsection (4) 
commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or 
s. 775.083. Any person who violates any provision of subsection (2) commits a 

felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. In any warrant, information, or indictment, it shall not be necessary to 
negative any exceptions, and the burden of any exception shall be upon the 
defendant. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 11, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 
59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 91, ch. 91-224; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 243, ch. 97- 
103; s. 121, ch. 99-397; s. 55, ch. 2000-318; s. 2, ch. 2004-25; s. 5, ch. 2008-216; 
s. 10, ch. 2011-141. 

465.0155 Standards of practice.—Consistent with the provisions of this act, the 
board shall adopt by rule standards of practice relating to the practice of pharmacy 
which shall be binding on every state agency and shall be applied by such agencies 



when enforcing or implementing any authority granted by any applicable statute, 
rule, or regulation, whether federal or state. 
History.—ss. 12, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91- 
429. 

465.0156 Registration of nonresident pharmacies.— 
(1)Any pharmacy which is located outside this state and which ships, mails, or 

delivers, in any manner, a dispensed medicinal drug into this state shall be 
considered a nonresident pharmacy, shall be registered with the board, shall provide 
pharmacy services at a high level of protection and competence, and shall disclose to 
the board the following specific information: 

(a)That it maintains at all times a valid, unexpired license, permit, or registration 
to operate the pharmacy in compliance with the laws of the state in which the 
dispensing facility is located and from which the medicinal drugs shall be dispensed; 

(b)The location, names, and titles of all principal corporate officers and the 
pharmacist who serves as the prescription department manager for dispensing 
medicinal drugs to residents of this state. This disclosure shall be made within 30 
days after any change of location, corporate officer, or pharmacist serving as the 
prescription department manager for dispensing medicinal drugs to residents of this 
state; 

(c)That it complies with all lawful directions and requests for information from the 
regulatory or licensing agency of all states in which it is licensed as well as with all 
requests for information made by the board pursuant to this section. It shall respond 
directly to all communications from the board concerning emergency circumstances 
arising from errors in the dispensing of medicinal drugs to the residents of this state; 

(d)That it maintains its records of medicinal drugs dispensed to patients in this 
state so that the records are readily retrievable from the other business records of 
the pharmacy and from the records of other medicinal drugs dispensed; and 

(e)That during its regular hours of operation but not less than 6 days per week, for 
a minimum of 40 hours per week, a toll-free telephone service shall be provided to 
facilitate communication between patients in this state and a pharmacist at the 
pharmacy who has access to the patient's records. This toll-free number must be 
disclosed on the label affixed to each container of dispensed medicinal drugs. 

(2)Applications for nonresident pharmacy registration under this section shall be 
made on a form furnished by the board. The board may require such information as 
the board deems reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes of this section. The 
board may grant an exemption from the registration requirements of this section to 
any nonresident pharmacy which confines its dispensing activity to isolated 
transactions. The board may define by rule the term isolated transactions. 

(3)The registration fee and the biennial renewal fee shall be the fee specified in s. 
465.022. 

(4)The board may deny, revoke, or suspend registration of, or fine or reprimand, a 

nonresident pharmacy for failure to comply with s. 465.025 or with any requirement 
of this section in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. 

(5)In addition to the prohibitions of subsection (4) the board may deny, revoke, or 
suspend registration of, or fine or reprimand, a nonresident pharmacy in accordance 
with the provisions of this chapter for conduct which causes serious bodily injury or 
serious psychological injury to a resident of this state if the board has referred the 
matter to the regulatory or licensing agency in the state in which the pharmacy is 
located and the regulatory or licensing agency fails to investigate within 180 days of 
the referral. 



(6)It is unlawful for any nonresident pharmacy which is not registered pursuant to 
this section to advertise its services in this state, or for any person who is a resident 
of this state to advertise the pharmacy services of a nonresident pharmacy which 
has not registered with the board, with the knowledge that the advertisement will or 
is likely to induce members of the public in this state to use the pharmacy to fill 
prescriptions. 

(7)This section does not apply to Internet pharmacies required to be permitted 
under s. 465.0197. 

(8)Notwithstanding s. 465.003(10), for purposes of this section, the registered 
pharmacy and the pharmacist designated by the registered pharmacy as the 
prescription department manager or the equivalent must be licensed in the state of 
location in order to dispense into this state. 
History.—ss. 13, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 3, ch. 89-218; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 31, ch. 95-144; s. 90, ch. 97-264; s. 2, ch. 2004-387. 

465.016 Disciplinary actions.— 
(1)The following acts constitute grounds for denial of a license or disciplinary 

action, as specified in s. 456.072(2): 
(a)Obtaining a license by misrepresentation or fraud or through an error of the 

department or the board. 
(b)Procuring or attempting to procure a license for any other person by making or 

causing to be made any false representation. 
(c)Permitting any person not licensed as a pharmacist in this state or not 

registered as an intern in this state, or permitting a registered intern who is not 
acting under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a licensed pharmacist, 
to fill, compound, or dispense any prescriptions in a pharmacy owned and operated 
by such pharmacist or in a pharmacy where such pharmacist is employed or on duty. 

(d)Being unfit or incompetent to practice pharmacy by reason of: 
1.Habitual intoxication. 
2.The misuse or abuse of any medicinal drug appearing in any schedule set forth in 

chapter 893. 
3.Any abnormal physical or mental condition which threatens the safety of persons 

to whom she or he might sell or dispense prescriptions, drugs, or medical supplies or 
for whom she or he might manufacture, prepare, or package, or supervise the 
manufacturing, preparation, or packaging of, prescriptions, drugs, or medical 
supplies. 

(e)Violating chapter 499; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the Federal Food, Drug, 
and cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the comprehensive Drug 
Abuse Prevention and control Act; or chapter 893. 

(f)Having been convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication, in a court of 
this state or other jurisdiction, of a crime which directly relates to the ability to 
practice pharmacy or to the practice of pharmacy. A plea of nob contendere 
constitutes a conviction for purposes of this provision. 

(g)Using in the compounding of a prescription, or furnishing upon prescription, an 
ingredient or article different in any manner from the ingredient or article prescribed, 
except as authorized in s. 465.019(6) or s. 465.025. 

(h)Having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in another state for any offense 
that would constitute a violation of this chapter. 

(i)Compounding, dispensing, or distributing a legend drug, including any controlled 
substance, other than in the course of the professional practice of pharmacy. For 
purposes of this paragraph, it shall be legally presumed that the compounding, 
dispensing, or distributing of legend drugs in excessive or inappropriate quantities is 



not in the best interests of the patient and is not in the course of the professional 
practice of pharmacy. 

(j)Making or filing a report or record which the licensee knows to be false, 
intentionally or negligently failing to file a report or record required by federal or 
state law, willfully impeding or obstructing such filing, or inducing another person to 
do so. Such reports or records include only those which the licensee is required to 
make or file in her or his capacity as a licensed pharmacist. 

(k)Failing to make prescription fee or price information readily available by failing 
to provide such information upon request and upon the presentation of a prescription 
for pricing or dispensing. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the 
quotation of price information on a prescription drug to a potential consumer by 
telephone. 

(l)Placing in the stock of any pharmacy any part of any prescription compounded 
or dispensed which is returned by a patient; however, in a hospital, nursing home, 
correctional facility, or extended care facility in which unit-dose medication is 
dispensed to inpatients, each dose being individually sealed and the individual unit 
dose or unit-dose system labeled with the name of the drug, dosage strength, 
manufacturer's control number, and expiration date, if any, the unused unit dose of 
medication may be returned to the pharmacy for redispensing. Each pharmacist shall 
maintain appropriate records for any unused or returned medicinal drugs. 

(m)Being unable to practice pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety by reason of 
illness, use of drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result 
of any mental or physical condition. A pharmacist affected under this paragraph shall 
at reasonable intervals be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate that she or he can 
resume the competent practice of pharmacy with reasonable skill and safety to her 
or his customers. 

(n)Violating a rule of the board or department or violating an order of the board or 
department previously entered in a disciplinary hearing. 

(o)Failing to report to the department any licensee under chapter 458 or under 
chapter 459 who the pharmacist knows has violated the grounds for disciplinary 
action set out in the law under which that person is licensed and who provides health 
care services in a facility licensed under chapter 395, or a health maintenance 
organization certificated under part I of chapter 641, in which the pharmacist also 
provides services. 

(p)Failing to notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing within 20 days of the 
commencement or cessation of the practice of the profession of pharmacy in Florida 
when such commencement or cessation of the practice of the profession of pharmacy 
in Florida was a result of a pending or completed disciplinary action or investigation 
in another jurisdiction. 

(q)Using or releasing a patient's records except as authorized by this chapter and 
chapter 456. 

(r)Violating any provision of this chapter or chapter 456, or any rules adopted 
pursuant thereto. 

(s)Dispensing any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to be 
a prescription as defined by s. 465.003(14) or s. 893.02 when the pharmacist knows 
or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is not based upon a valid 
practitioner-patient relationship. 

(t)Committing an error or omission during the performance of a specific function of 
prescription drug processing, which includes, for purposes of this paragraph: 

1.Receiving, interpreting, or clarifying a prescription. 
2.Entering prescription data into the pharmacy's record. 
3.Verifying or validating a prescription. 
4.Performing pharmaceutical calculations. 



5.Performing prospective drug review as defined by the board. 
6.Obtaining refill and substitution authorizations. 
7.Interpreting or acting on clinical data. 
8.Performing therapeutic interventions. 
9.Providing drug information concerning a patient's prescription. 
10.Providing patient counseling. 
(2)The board may enter an order denying licensure or imposing any of the 

penalties in s. 456.072(2) against any applicant for licensure or licensee who is 
found guilty of violating any provision of subsection (1) of this section or who is 
found guilty of violating any provision of s. 456.072(1). 

(3)The board shall not reinstate the license of a pharmacist, or cause a license to 
be issued to a person it has deemed unqualified, until such time as it is satisfied that 
she or he has complied with all the terms and conditions set forth in the final order 
and that such person is capable of safely engaging in the practice of pharmacy. 

(4)The board shall by rule establish guidelines for the disposition of disciplinary 
cases involving specific types of violations. Such guidelines may include minimum 
and maximum fines, periods of supervision or probation, or conditions of probation 
or reissuance of a license. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 13, 15, 24, 25, 30, 34, 62, ch. 80-406; s. 324, ch. 
81-259; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 3, ch. 83-101; s. 37, ch. 83-216; ss. 32, 119, ch. 
83-329; s. 1, ch. 84-364; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 41, ch. 88-1; s. 20, ch. 88-277; 
s. 2, ch. 89-77; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 45, ch. 92- 
149; s. 32, ch. 95-144; s. 244, ch. 97-103; s. 91, ch. 97-264; s. 119, ch. 99-397; s. 
126, ch. 2000-160; s. 33, ch. 2001-277; s. 3, ch. 2004-387; s. 10, ch. 2005-240; s. 
5, ch. 2008-184; s. 11, ch. 2011-141. 

465.0161 Distribution of medicinal drugs without a permit.—An Internet pharmacy 
that distributes a medicinal drug to any person in this state without being permitted 
as a pharmacy under this chapter commits a felony of the second degree, punishable 
as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 
History.—s. 4, ch. 2004-387. 

465.017 Authority to inspect; disposal.— 
(1)Duly authorized agents and employees of the department shall have the power 

to inspect in a lawful manner at all reasonable hours any pharmacy, hospital, clinic, 
wholesale establishment, manufacturer, physician's office, or any other place in the 
state in which drugs and medical supplies are manufactured, packed, packaged, 
made, stored, sold, offered for sale, exposed for sale, or kept for sale for the purpose 
of: 

(a)Determining if any of the provisions of this chapter or any rule promulgated 
under its authority is being violated; 

(b)Securing samples or specimens of any drug or medical supply after paying or 
offering to pay for such sample or specimen; or 

(c)Securing such other evidence as may be needed for prosecution under this 
chapter. 

(2)(a)Except as permitted by this chapter, and chapters 406, 409, 456, 499, and 
893, records maintained in a pharmacy relating to the filling of prescriptions and the 
dispensing of medicinal drugs shall not be furnished to any person other than to the 
patient for whom the drugs were dispensed, or her or his legal representative, or to 
the department pursuant to existing law, or, in the event that the patient is 
incapacitated or unable to request said records, her or his spouse except upon the 
written authorization of such patient. Such records may be furnished in any civil or 



criminal proceeding, upon the issuance of a subpoena from a court of competent 
jurisdiction and proper notice to the patient or her or his legal representative by the 
party seeking such records. 

(b)The board shall adopt rules to establish practice guidelines for pharmacies to 
dispose of records maintained in a pharmacy relating to the filling of prescriptions 
and the dispensing of medicinal drugs. Such rules shall be consistent with the duty to 
preserve the confidentiality of such records in accordance with applicable state and 
federal law. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 1, 2, ch. 85-151; ss. 26, 27, 
ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 125, ch. 94- 
218; s. 245, ch. 97-103; s. 127, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2003-166. 

465.018 Community pharmacies; permits.— 
(1)Any person desiring a permit to operate a community pharmacy shall apply to 

the department. 
(2)If the board office certifies that the application complies with the laws of the 

state and the rules of the board governing pharmacies, the department shall issue 
the permit. No permit shall be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is designated as 
the prescription department manager. 

(3)The board may suspend or revoke the permit of, or may refuse to issue a 

permit to: 
(a)Any person who has been disciplined or who has abandoned a permit or allowed 

a permit to become void after written notice that disciplinary proceedings had been 
or would be brought against the permit; 

(b)Any person who is an officer, director, or person interested directly or indirectly 
in a person or business entity that has had a permit disciplined or abandoned or 
become void after written notice that disciplinary proceedings had been or would be 
brought against the permit; or 

(c)Any person who is or has been an officer of a business entity, or who was 
interested directly or indirectly in a business entity, the permit of which has been 
disciplined or abandoned or become null and void after written notice that 
disciplinary proceedings had been or would be brought against the permit. 

(4)In addition to any other remedies provided by law, the board may deny the 
application or suspend or revoke the license, registration, or certificate of any entity 
regulated or licensed by it if the applicant, licensee, registrant, or licenseholder, or, 
in the case of a corporation, partnership, or other business entity, if any officer, 
director, agent, or managing employee of that business entity or any affiliated 
person, partner, or shareholder having an ownership interest equal to 5 percent or 
greater in that business entity, has failed to pay all outstanding fines, liens, or 
overpayments assessed by final order of the department, unless a repayment plan is 
approved by the department, or has failed to comply with any repayment plan. 

(5)In reviewing any application requesting a change of ownership or a change of 
licensee or registrant, the transferor shall, before board approval of the change, 
repay or make arrangements to repay any amounts owed to the department. If the 
transferor fails to repay or make arrangements to repay the amounts owed to the 
department, the license or registration may not be issued to the transferee until 
repayment or until arrangements for repayment are made. 

(6)Passing an onsite inspection is a prerequisite to the issuance of an initial permit 
or a permit for a change of location. The department must make the inspection 
within 90 days before issuance of the permit. 

(7)Community pharmacies that dispense controlled substances must maintain a 

record of all controlled substance dispensing consistent with the requirements of s. 



893.07 and must make the record available to the department and law enforcement 
agencies upon request. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 3, ch. 
88-172; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 12, ch. 2011-141. 

465.0181 Community pharmacy permit required to dispense Schedule II or 
Schedule III controlled substances.—In order to dispense controlled substances listed 
in Schedule II or Schedule III, as provided in s. 893.03, on or after July 1, 2012, a 

community pharmacy permittee must be permitted pursuant to this chapter, as 
amended by this act, and any rules adopted thereunder. 
History.—s. 13, ch. 2011-141. 

465.019 Institutional pharmacies; permits.— 
(1)Any institution desiring to operate an institutional pharmacy shall apply to the 

department. If the board certifies that the application complies with the laws of the 
state and the rules of the board governing pharmacies, the department shall issue 
the permit. 

(2)The following classes of institutional pharmacies are established: 
(a)"Class I institutional pharmacies" are those institutional pharmacies in which all 

medicinal drugs are administered from individual prescription containers to the 
individual patient and in which medicinal drugs are not dispensed on the premises, 
except that nursing homes licensed under part II of chapter 400 may purchase 
medical oxygen for administration to residents. No medicinal drugs may be 
dispensed in a Class I institutional pharmacy. 

(b)"Class II institutional pharmacies" are those institutional pharmacies which 
employ the services of a registered pharmacist or pharmacists who, in practicing 
institutional pharmacy, shall provide dispensing and consulting services on the 
premises to patients of that institution, for use on the premises of that institution. 
However, an institutional pharmacy located in an area or county included in an 
emergency order or proclamation of a state of emergency declared by the Governor 
may provide dispensing and consulting services to individuals who are not patients of 
the institution. However, a single dose of a medicinal drug may be obtained and 
administered to a patient on a valid physician's drug order under the supervision of a 

physician or charge nurse, consistent with good institutional practice procedures. The 
obtaining and administering of such single dose of a medicinal drug shall be pursuant 
to drug-handling procedures established by a consultant pharmacist. Medicinal drugs 
may be dispensed in a Class II institutional pharmacy, but only in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. 

(c)"Modified Class II institutional pharmacies" are those institutional pharmacies in 
short-term, primary care treatment centers that meet all the requirements for a 

Class II permit, except space and equipment requirements. 
(3)Medicinal drugs shall be stocked, stored, compounded, dispensed, or 

administered in any health care institution only when that institution has secured an 
institutional pharmacy permit from the department. 

(4)Medicinal drugs shall be dispensed in an institutional pharmacy to outpatients 
only when that institution has secured a community pharmacy permit from the 
department. However, an individual licensed to prescribe medicinal drugs in this 
state may dispense up to a 24-hour supply of a medicinal drug to any patient of an 
emergency department of a hospital that operates a Class II institutional pharmacy, 
provided that the physician treating the patient in such hospital's emergency 
department determines that the medicinal drug is warranted and that community 
pharmacy services are not readily accessible, geographically or otherwise, to the 



patient. Such dispensing from the emergency department must be in accordance 
with the procedures of the hospital. For any such patient for whom a medicinal drug 
is warranted for a period to exceed 24 hours, an individual licensed to prescribe such 
drug must dispense a 24-hour supply of such drug to the patient and must provide 
the patient with a prescription for such drug for use after the initial 24-hour period. 
The board may adopt rules necessary to carry out the provisions of this subsection. 

(5)All institutional pharmacies shall be under the professional supervision of a 

consultant pharmacist, and the compounding and dispensing of medicinal drugs shall 
be done only by a licensed pharmacist. Every institutional pharmacy that employs or 
otherwise uses registered pharmacy technicians shall have a written policy and 
procedures manual specifying those duties, tasks, and functions that a registered 
pharmacy technician is allowed to perform. 

(6)In a Class II institutional pharmacy, an institutional formulary system may be 
adopted with approval of the medical staff for the purpose of identifying those 
medicinal drugs and proprietary preparations that may be dispensed by the 
pharmacists employed in such institution. A facility with a Class II institutional permit 
which is operating under the formulary system shall establish policies and procedures 
for the development of the system in accordance with the joint standards of the 
American Hospital Association and American Society of Hospital Pharmacists for the 
utilization of a hospital formulary system, which formulary shall be approved by the 
medical staff. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 2, ch. 83-101; ss. 26, 27, ch. 
86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 29, ch. 93-211; s. 
244, ch. 98-166; s. 36, ch. 99-397; s. 79, ch. 2001-277; s. 6, ch. 2008-216. 

465.0193 Nuclear pharmacy permits.—Any person desiring a permit to operate a 

nuclear pharmacy shall apply to the department. If the board certifies that the 
application complies with applicable law, the department shall issue the permit. No 
permit shall be issued unless a duly licensed and qualified nuclear pharmacist is 
designated as being responsible for activities described in s. 465.0126. The 
permittee shall notify the department within 10 days of any change of the licensed 
pharmacist responsible for the compounding and dispensing of nuclear 
pharmaceuticals. 
History.—ss. 33, 118, ch. 83-329; ss. 15, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 4, ch. 88-172; S. 

59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.0196 Special pharmacy permits.—Any person desiring a permit to operate a 

special pharmacy shall apply to the department for a special pharmacy permit. If the 
board certifies that the application complies with the applicable laws and rules of the 
board governing the practice of the profession of pharmacy, the department shall 
issue the permit. A permit may not be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is 
designated to undertake the professional supervision of the compounding and 
dispensing of all drugs dispensed by the pharmacy. The licensed pharmacist shall be 
responsible for maintaining all drug records and for providing for the security of the 
area in the facility in which the compounding, storing, and dispensing of medicinal 
drugs occurs. The permittee shall notify the department within 10 days after any 
change of the licensed pharmacist responsible for such duties. Each permittee that 
employs or otherwise uses registered pharmacy technicians shall have a written 
policy and procedures manual specifying those duties, tasks, and functions that a 

registered pharmacy technician is allowed to perform. 



History.—ss. 34, 118, ch. 83-329; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 59, ch. 91-137; S. 6, 
ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 92, ch. 97-264; s. 122, ch. 99-397; s. 80, ch. 2001- 
277; s. 5, ch. 2004-387; s. 7, ch. 2008-216. 

465.0197 Internet pharmacy permits.— 
(1)Any person desiring a permit to operate an Internet pharmacy shall apply to the 

department for an Internet pharmacy permit. If the board certifies that the 
application complies with the applicable laws and rules of the board governing the 
practice of the profession of pharmacy, the department shall issue the permit. A 
permit may not be issued unless a licensed pharmacist is designated as the 
prescription department manager for dispensing medicinal drugs to persons in this 
state. The licensed pharmacist shall be responsible for maintaining all drug records 
and for providing for the security of the area in the facility in which the 
compounding, storing, and dispensing of medicinal drugs to persons in this state 
occurs. The permittee shall notify the department within 30 days after any change of 
the licensed pharmacist responsible for such duties. A permittee that employs or 
otherwise uses registered pharmacy technicians shall have a written policy and 
procedures manual specifying those duties, tasks, and functions that a registered 
pharmacy technician is allowed to perform. 

(2)An Internet pharmacy must obtain a permit under this section to sell medicinal 
drugs to persons in this state. 

(3)An Internet pharmacy shall provide pharmacy services at a high level of 
protection and competence and shall disclose to the board the following specific 
information: 

(a)That it maintains at all times a valid, unexpired license, permit, or registration 
to operate the pharmacy in compliance with the laws of the state in which the 
dispensing facility is located and from which the medicinal drugs shall be dispensed. 

(b)The location, names, and titles of all principal corporate officers and the 
pharmacist who serves as the prescription department manager for dispensing 
medicinal drugs to persons in this state. This disclosure shall be made within 30 days 
after any change of location, principal corporate officer, or pharmacist serving as the 
prescription department manager for dispensing medicinal drugs to persons in this 
state. 

(c)That it complies with all lawful directions and requests for information from the 
regulatory or licensing agency of all states in which it is licensed as well as with all 
requests for information made by the board pursuant to this section. It shall respond 
directly to all communications from the board concerning emergency circumstances 
arising from errors in the dispensing of medicinal drugs to persons in this state. 

(d)That it maintains its records of medicinal drugs dispensed to patients in this 
state so that the records are readily retrievable from the other business records of 
the pharmacy and from the records of other medicinal drugs dispensed. 

(e)That during its regular hours of operation but not less than 6 days per week, for 
a minimum of 40 hours per week, a toll-free telephone service shall be provided to 
facilitate communication between patients in this state and a pharmacist at the 
pharmacy who has access to the patient's records. This toll-free number must be 
disclosed on the label affixed to each container of dispensed medicinal drugs. 

(4)Notwithstanding s. 465.003(10), for purposes of this section, the Internet 
pharmacy and the pharmacist designated by the Internet pharmacy as the 
prescription department manager or the equivalent must be licensed in the state of 
location in order to dispense into this state. 
History.—s. 6, ch. 2004-387; s. 8, ch. 2008-216. 



465.022 Pharmacies; general requirements; fees.— 
(1)The board shall adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to 

implement the provisions of this chapter. Such rules shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, rules relating to: 

(a)General drug safety measures. 
(b)Minimum standards for the physical facilities of pharmacies. 
(c)Safe storage of floor-stock drugs. 
(d)Functions of a pharmacist in an institutional pharmacy, consistent with the size 

and scope of the pharmacy. 
(e)Procedures for the safe storage and handling of radioactive drugs. 
(f)Procedures for the distribution and disposition of medicinal drugs distributed 

pursuant to s. 499.028. 
(g)Procedures for transfer of prescription files and medicinal drugs upon the 

change of ownership or closing of a pharmacy. 
(h)Minimum equipment which a pharmacy shall at all times possess to fill 

prescriptions properly. 
(i)Procedures for the dispensing of controlled substances to minimize dispensing 

based on fraudulent representations or invalid practitioner-patient relationships. 
(2)A pharmacy permit may be issued only to a natural person who is at least 18 

years of age, to a partnership comprised of at least one natural person and all of 
whose partners are at least 18 years of age, to a governmental agency, or to a 

business entity that is properly registered with the Secretary of State, if required by 
law, and has been issued a federal employer tax identification number. Permits 
issued to business entities may be issued only to entities whose affiliated persons, 
members, partners, officers, directors, and agents, including persons required to be 
fingerprinted under subsection (3), are not less than 18 years of age. 

(3)Any person or business entity, before engaging in the operation of a pharmacy, 
shall file with the board a sworn application on forms provided by the department. 
For purposes of this section, any person required to provide fingerprints under this 
subsection is an affiliated person within the meaning of s. 465.023(1). 

(a)An application for a pharmacy permit must include a set of fingerprints from 
each person having an ownership interest of 5 percent or greater and from any 
person who, directly or indirectly, manages, oversees, or controls the operation of 
the applicant, including officers and members of the board of directors of an 
applicant that is a corporation. The applicant must provide payment in the 
application for the cost of state and national criminal history records checks. 

1.For corporations having more than $100 million of business taxable assets in this 
state, in lieu of these fingerprint requirements, the department shall require the 
prescription department manager or consultant pharmacist of record who will be 
directly involved in the management and operation of the pharmacy to submit a set 
of fingerprints. 

2.A representative of a corporation described in subparagraph 1. satisfies the 
requirement to submit a set of his or her fingerprints if the fingerprints are on file 
with the department or the Agency for Health Care Administration, meet the 
fingerprint specifications for submission by the Department of Law Enforcement, and 
are available to the department. 

(b)The department shall annually submit the fingerprints provided by the applicant 
to the Department of Law Enforcement for a state criminal history records check. 
The Department of Law Enforcement shall annually forward the fingerprints to the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history records check. The 
department shall report the results of annual criminal history records checks to 
wholesale distributors permitted under chapter 499 for the purposes of s. 
499.0121(15). 



(c)In addition to those documents required by the department or board, each 
applicant having any financial or ownership interest greater than 5 percent in the 
subject of the application must submit a signed affidavit disclosing any financial or 
ownership interest greater than 5 percent in any pharmacy permitted in the past 5 

years, which pharmacy has closed voluntarily or involuntarily, has filed a voluntary 
relinquishment of its permit, has had its permit suspended or revoked, or has had an 
injunction issued against it by a regulatory agency. The affidavit must disclose the 
reason such entity was closed, whether voluntary or involuntary. 

(4)An application for a pharmacy permit must include the applicant's written 
policies and procedures for preventing controlled substance dispensing based on 
fraudulent representations or invalid practitioner-patient relationships. The board 
must review the policies and procedures and may deny a permit if the policies and 
procedures are insufficient to reasonably prevent such dispensing. The department 
may phase in the submission and review of policies and procedures over one 18- 
month period beginning July 1, 2011. 

(5)The department or board shall deny an application for a pharmacy permit if the 
applicant or an affiliated person, partner, officer, director, or prescription department 
manager or consultant pharmacist of record of the applicant: 

(a)Has obtained a permit by misrepresentation or fraud. 
(b)Has attempted to procure, or has procured, a permit for any other person by 

making, or causing to be made, any false representation. 
(c)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, 
or the ability to practice, the profession of pharmacy. 

(d)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care 
fraud. 

(e)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a felony under chapter 409, chapter 817, or chapter 893, 
or a similar felony offense committed in another state or jurisdiction, since July 1, 
2009. 

(f)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801-970 or 42 U.S.C. ss. 
1395-1396 since July 1, 2009. 

(g)Has been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid program pursuant to s. 
409.913, unless the applicant has been in good standing with the Florida Medicaid 
program for the most recent 5-year period. 

(h)Has been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established 
by the state, from any other state Medicaid program, unless the applicant has been 
in good standing with a state Medicaid program for the most recent 5-year period 
and the termination occurred at least 20 years before the date of the application. 

(i)Is currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services Office of Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities. 

(j)Has dispensed any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to 
be a prescription as defined by s. 465.003(14) or s. 893.02 when the pharmacist 
knows or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is not based upon a 

valid practitioner-patient relationship that includes a documented patient evaluation, 
including history and a physical examination adequate to establish the diagnosis for 
which any drug is prescribed and any other requirement established by board rule 
under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, chapter 463, chapter 464, or chapter 
466. 



For felonies in which the defendant entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere in an 
agreement with the court to enter a pretrial intervention or drug diversion program, the 
department shall deny the application if upon final resolution of the case the licensee has 
failed to successfully complete the program. 

(6)The department or board may deny an application for a pharmacy permit if the 
applicant or an affiliated person, partner, officer, director, or prescription department 
manager or consultant pharmacist of record of the applicant has violated or failed to 
comply with any provision of this chapter; chapter 499, the Florida Drug and 
Cosmetic Act; chapter 893; 21 U.S.C. ss. 301-392, the Federal Food, Drug, and 
Cosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention 
and Control Act; or any rules or regulations promulgated thereunder unless the 
violation or noncompliance is technical. 

(7)After the application has been filed with the board and the permit fee provided 
in this section has been received, the board shall cause the application to be fully 
investigated, both as to the qualifications of the applicant and the prescription 
department manager or consultant pharmacist designated to be in charge and as to 
the premises and location described in the application. 

(8)The Board of Pharmacy shall have the authority to determine whether a bona 
fide transfer of ownership is present and that the sale of a pharmacy is not being 
accomplished for the purpose of avoiding an administrative prosecution. 

(9)Upon the completion of the investigation of an application, the board shall 
approve or deny the application. If approved, the permit shall be issued by the 
department. 

(10)A permittee must notify the department, on a form approved by the board, 
within 10 days after any change in prescription department manager or consultant 
pharmacist of record. 

(11)A permittee must notify the department of the identity of the prescription 
department manager within 10 days after employment. The prescription department 
manager must comply with the following requirements: 

(a)The prescription department manager of a permittee must obtain and maintain 
all drug records required by any state or federal law to be obtained by a pharmacy, 
including, but not limited to, records required by or under this chapter, chapter 499, 
or chapter 893. The prescription department manager must ensure the permittee's 
compliance with all rules adopted under those chapters as they relate to the practice 
of the profession of pharmacy and the sale of prescription drugs. 

(b)The prescription department manager must ensure the security of the 
prescription department. The prescription department manager must notify the 
board of any theft or significant loss of any controlled substances within 1 business 
day after discovery of the theft or loss. 

(c)A registered pharmacist may not serve as the prescription department manager 
in more than one location unless approved by the board. 

(12)The board shall adopt rules that require the keeping of such records of 
prescription drugs as are necessary for the protection of public health, safety, and 
welfare. 

(a)All required records documenting prescription drug distributions shall be readily 
available or immediately retrievable during an inspection by the department. 

(b)The records must be maintained for 4 years after the creation or receipt of the 
record, whichever is later. 

(13)Permits issued by the department are not transferable. 
(14)The board shall set the fees for the following: 
(a)Initial permit fee not to exceed $250. 
(b)Biennial permit renewal not to exceed $250. 



(c)Delinquent fee not to exceed $100. 
(d)Change of location fee not to exceed $100. 

History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 36, ch. 82-225; ss. 16, 26, 
27, ch. 86-256; s. 6, ch. 88-172; s. 14, ch. 88-205; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 127, ch. 98-200; s. 27, ch. 2009-223; s. 14, ch. 2011-141. 

465.023 Pharmacy permittee; disciplinary action.— 
(1)The department or the board may revoke or suspend the permit of any 

pharmacy permittee, and may fine, place on probation, or otherwise discipline any 
pharmacy permittee if the permittee, or any affiliated person, partner, officer, 
director, or agent of the permittee, including a person fingerprinted under s. 
465.022(3), has: 

(a)Obtained a permit by misrepresentation or fraud or through an error of the 
department or the board; 

(b)Attempted to procure, or has procured, a permit for any other person by 
making, or causing to be made, any false representation; 

(c)Violated any of the requirements of this chapter or any of the rules of the Board 
of Pharmacy; of chapter 499, known as the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act"; of 21 
U.S.C. ss. 301-392, known as the "Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act"; of 21 
U.S.C. ss. 821 et seq., known as the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and 
Control Act; or of chapter 893; 

(d)Been convicted or found guilty, regardless of adjudication, of a felony or any 
other crime involving moral turpitude in any of the courts of this state, of any other 
state, or of the United States; 

(e)Been convicted or disciplined by a regulatory agency of the Federal Government 
or a regulatory agency of another state for any offense that would constitute a 

violation of this chapter; 
(f)Been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless 

of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the 
ability to practice, the profession of pharmacy; 

(g)Been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless 
of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud; or 

(h)Dispensed any medicinal drug based upon a communication that purports to be 
a prescription as defined by s. 465.003(14) or s. 893.02 when the pharmacist knows 
or has reason to believe that the purported prescription is not based upon a valid 
practitioner-patient relationship that includes a documented patient evaluation, 
including history and a physical examination adequate to establish the diagnosis for 
which any drug is prescribed and any other requirement established by board rule 
under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, chapter 463, chapter 464, or chapter 
466. 

(2)If a pharmacy permit is revoked or suspended, the owner, manager, or 
proprietor shall cease to operate the establishment as a pharmacy as of the effective 
date of such suspension or revocation. In the event of such revocation or 
suspension, the owner, manager, or proprietor shall remove from the premises all 
signs and symbols identifying the premises as a pharmacy. The period of such 
suspension shall be prescribed by the Board of Pharmacy, but in no case shall it 
exceed 1 year. In the event that the permit is revoked, the person owning or 
operating the establishment shall not be entitled to make application for a permit to 
operate a pharmacy for a period of 1 year from the date of such revocation. Upon 
the effective date of such revocation, the permittee shall advise the Board of 
Pharmacy of the disposition of the medicinal drugs located on the premises. Such 



disposition shall be subject to continuing supervision and approval by the Board of 
Pharmacy. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 38, ch. 83-216; ss. 35, 119, 
ch. 83-329; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91- 
429; s. 33, ch. 95-144; s. 7, ch. 2004-387; s. 6, ch. 2008-184; s. 28, ch. 2009-223. 

465.0235 Automated pharmacy systems used by long-term care facilities, hospices, 
or state correctional institutions.— 

(1)A pharmacy may provide pharmacy services to a long-term care facility or 
hospice licensed under chapter 400 or chapter 429 or a state correctional institution 
operated under chapter 944 through the use of an automated pharmacy system that 
need not be located at the same location as the pharmacy. 

(2)Medicinal drugs stored in bulk or unit of use in an automated pharmacy system 
servicing a long-term care facility, hospice, or correctional institution are part of the 
inventory of the pharmacy providing pharmacy services to that facility, hospice, or 
institution, and drugs delivered by the automated pharmacy system are considered 
to have been dispensed by that pharmacy. 

(3)The operation of an automated pharmacy system must be under the supervision 
of a Florida-licensed pharmacist. To qualify as a supervisor for an automated 
pharmacy system, the pharmacist need not be physically present at the site of the 
automated pharmacy system and may supervise the system electronically. The 
Florida-licensed pharmacist shall be required to develop and implement policies and 
procedures designed to verify that the medicinal drugs delivered by the automated 
dispensing system are accurate and valid and that the machine is properly 
restocked. 

(4)The Legislature does not intend this section to limit the current practice of 
pharmacy in this state. This section is intended to allow automated pharmacy 
systems to enhance the ability of a pharmacist to provide pharmacy services in 
locations that do not employ a full-time pharmacist. This section does not limit or 
replace the use of a consultant pharmacist. 

(5)The board shall adopt rules governing the use of an automated pharmacy 
system by January 1, 2005, which must specify: 

(a)Recordkeeping requirements; 
(b)Security requirements; and 
(c)Labeling requirements that permit the use of unit-dose medications if the 

facility, hospice, or institution maintains medication-administration records that 
include directions for use of the medication and the automated pharmacy system 
identifies: 

1.The dispensing pharmacy; 
2.The prescription number; 
3.The name of the patient; and 
4.The name of the prescribing practitioner. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2004-25; s. 92, ch. 2006-197. 
465.O24Promoting sale of certain drugs prohibited.— 
(1)It is declared that the unrestricted use of certain controlled substances, causing 

abnormal reactions that may interfere with the user's physical reflexes and 
judgments, may create hazardous circumstances which may cause accidents to the 
user and to others, thereby affecting the public health, safety, and welfare. It is 
further declared to be in the public interest to limit the means of promoting the sale 
and use of these drugs. All provisions of this section shall be liberally construed to 
carry out these objectives and purposes. 



(2)No pharmacist, owner, or employee of a retail drug establishment shall use any 
communication media to promote or advertise the use or sale of any controlled 
substance appearing in any schedule in chapter 893. 

(3)This section shall not prohibit the advertising of any medicinal drugs, other than 
those controlled substances specified in chapter 893, or any patent or proprietary 
preparation, provided the advertising is not false, misleading, or deceptive. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, 
ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.0244 Information disclosure.—Every pharmacy shall make available on its 
Internet website a link to the performance outcome and financial data that is 
published by the Agency for Health Care Administration pursuant to s. 408.05(3)(k) 
and shall place in the area where customers receive filled prescriptions notice that 
such information is available electronically and the address of its Internet website. 
History.—s. 39, ch. 2004-297; s. 14, ch. 2006-261. 

465.025 Substitution of drugs.— 
(1)As used in this section: 
(a)"Brand name" means the registered trademark name given to a drug product by 

its manufacturer, labeler, or distributor. 
(b)"Generically equivalent drug product" means a drug product with the same 

active ingredient, finished dosage form, and strength. 
(c)"Prescriber" means any practitioner licensed to prescribe medicinal drugs. 
(2)A pharmacist who receives a prescription for a brand name drug shall, unless 

requested otherwise by the purchaser, substitute a less expensive, generically 
equivalent drug product that is: 

(a)Distributed by a business entity doing business, and subject to suit and service 
of legal process, in the United States; and 

(b)Listed in the formulary of generic and brand name drug products as provided in 
subsection (5) for the brand name drug prescribed, 

unless the prescriber writes the words "MEDICALLY NECESSARY," in her or his own handwriting, 
on the face of a written prescription; unless, in the case of an oral prescription, the prescriber 
expressly indicates to the pharmacist that the brand name drug prescribed is medically 
necessary; or unless, in the case of a prescription that is electronically generated and 
transmitted, the prescriber makes an overt act when transmitting the prescription to indicate 
that the brand name drug prescribed is medically necessary. When done in conjunction with 
the electronic transmission of the prescription, the prescriber's overt act indicates to the 
pharmacist that the brand name drug prescribed is medically necessary. 

(3)(a)Any pharmacist who substitutes any drug as provided in subsection (2) shall 
notify the person presenting the prescription of such substitution, together with the 
existence and amount of the retail price difference between the brand name drug 
and the drug substituted for it, and shall inform the person presenting the 
prescription that such person may refuse the substitution as provided in subsection 
(2). 

(b)Any pharmacist substituting a less expensive drug product shall pass on to the 
consumer the full amount of the savings realized by such substitution. 

(4)Each pharmacist shall maintain a record of any substitution of a generically 
equivalent drug product for a prescribed brand name drug as provided in this 
section. 



(5)Each community pharmacy shall establish a formulary of generic and brand 
name drug products which, if selected as the drug product of choice, would not pose 
a threat to the health and safety of patients receiving prescription medication. In 
compiling the list of generic and brand name drug products for inclusion in the 
formulary, the pharmacist shall rely on drug product research, testing, information, 
and formularies compiled by other pharmacies, by states, by the United States 
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, by the United States Department of 
Health and Human Services, or by any other source which the pharmacist deems 
reliable. Each community pharmacy shall make such formulary available to the 
public, the Board of Pharmacy, or any physician requesting same. This formulary 
shall be revised following each addition, deletion, or modification of said formulary. 

(6)The Board of Pharmacy and the Board of Medicine shall establish by rule a 

formulary of generic drug type and brand name drug products which are determined 
by the boards to demonstrate clinically significant biological or therapeutic 
inequivalence and which, if substituted, would pose a threat to the health and safety 
of patients receiving prescription medication. 

(a)The formulary may be added to or deleted from as the Board of Pharmacy and 
the Board of Medicine deem appropriate. Any person who requests any inclusion, 
addition, or deletion of a generic drug type or brand name drug product to the 
formulary shall have the burden of proof to show cause why such inclusion, addition, 
or deletion should be made. 

(b)Upon adoption of the formulary required by this subsection, and upon each 
addition, deletion, or modification to the formulary, the Board of Pharmacy shall mail 
a copy to each manager of the prescription department of each community 
pharmacy licensed by the state, each nonresident pharmacy registered in the state, 
and each board regulating practitioners licensed by the laws of the state to prescribe 
drugs shall incorporate such formulary into its rules. No pharmacist shall substitute a 

generically equivalent drug product for a prescribed brand name drug product if the 
brand name drug product or the generic drug type drug product is included in the 
said formulary. 

(7)Every community pharmacy shall display in a prominent place that is in clear 
and unobstructed public view, at or near the place where prescriptions are 
dispensed, a sign in block letters not less than 1 inch in height which shall read: 
"CONSULT YOUR PHARMACIST CONCERNING THE AVAILABILITY OF A LESS 
EXPENSIVE GENERICALLY EQUIVALENT DRUG AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA 
LAW." 

(8)The standard of care to be applied to the acts of any pharmacist performing 
professional services in compliance with this section when a substitution is made by 
said pharmacist shall be that which would apply to the performance of professional 
services in the dispensing of a prescription order prescribing a drug by generic name. 
In no event when a pharmacist substitutes a drug shall the prescriber be liable in any 
action for loss, damage, injury, or death to any person occasioned by or arising from 
the use or nonuse of the substituted drug, unless the original drug was incorrectly 
prescribed. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; s. 325, ch. 81-259; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, 
ch. 86-256; s. 4, ch. 89-218; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 20, ch. 91-220; 
s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 246, ch. 97-103; s. 4, ch. 2006-271. 

465.0251 Generic drugs; removal from formulary under specified circumstances.— 
(1)The Board of Pharmacy and the Board of Medicine shall remove any generic 

named drug product from the formulary established by s. 465.025(6), if every 
commercially marketed equivalent of that drug product is "A" rated as 



therapeutically equivalent to a reference listed drug or is a reference listed drug as 
referred to in "Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations" 
(Orange Book) published by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(2)Nothing in this act shall alter or amend s. 465.025 as to existing law providing 
for the authority of physicians to prohibit generic drug substitution by writing 
"medically necessary" on the prescription. 
History.—ss. 1, 2, ch. 2001-146. 

465.0255 Expiration date of medicinal drugs; display; related use and storage 
instructions.— 

(1)The manufacturer, repackager, or other distributor of any medicinal drug shall 
display the expiration date of each drug in a readable fashion on the container and 
on its packaging. The term "readable" means conspicuous and bold. 

(2)Each pharmacist for a community pharmacy dispensing medicinal drugs and 
each practitioner dispensing medicinal drugs on an outpatient basis shall display on 
the outside of the container of each medicinal drug dispensed, or in other written 
form delivered to the purchaser: 

(a)The expiration date when provided by the manufacturer, repackager, or other 
distributor of the drug; or 

(b)An earlier beyond-use date for expiration, which may be up to 1 year after the 
date of dispensing. 

The dispensing pharmacist or practitioner must provide information concerning the expiration 
date to the purchaser upon request and must provide appropriate instructions regarding the 
proper use and storage of the drug. 

(3)This section does not impose liability on the dispensing pharmacist or 
practitioner for damages related to, or caused by, a medicinal drug that loses its 
effectiveness prior to the expiration date displayed by the dispensing pharmacist or 
practitioner. 

(4)The provisions of this section are intended to notify the patient receiving a 

medicinal drug of the information required by this section, and the dispensing 
pharmacist or practitioner shall not be liable for the patient's failure to heed such 
notice or to follow the instructions for storage. 
History.—ss. 1, 2, ch. 93-44; s. 8, ch. 2004-387. 

465.026 Filling of certain prescriptions.—Nothing contained in this chapter shall be 
construed to prohibit a pharmacist licensed in this state from filling or refilling a valid 
prescription which is on file in a pharmacy located in this state or in another state 
and has been transferred from one pharmacy to another by any means, including 
any electronic means, under the following conditions: 

(1)Prior to dispensing any transferred prescription, the dispensing pharmacist 
must, either verbally or by any electronic means, do all of the following: 

(a)Advise the patient that the prescription on file at the other pharmacy must be 
canceled before it may be filled or refilled. 

(b)Determine that the prescription is valid and on file at the other pharmacy and 
that the prescription may be filled or refilled, as requested, in accordance with the 
prescriber's intent expressed on the prescription. 

(c)Notify the pharmacist or pharmacy where the prescription is on file that the 
prescription must be canceled. 

(d)Record in writing, or by any electronic means, the prescription order, the name 
of the pharmacy at which the prescription was on file, the prescription number, the 



name of the drug and the original amount dispensed, the date of original dispensing, 
and the number of remaining authorized refills. 

(e)Obtain the consent of the prescriber to the refilling of the prescription when the 
prescription, in the dispensing pharmacist's professional judgment, so requires. Any 
interference with the professional judgment of the dispensing pharmacist by any 
pharmacist or pharmacy permittee, or its agents or employees, shall be grounds for 
discipline. 

(2)Upon receipt of a prescription transfer request, if the pharmacist is satisfied in 
her or his professional judgment that the request is valid, or if the request has been 
validated by any electronic means, the pharmacist or pharmacy must do all of the 
following: 

(a)Transfer the information required by paragraph (1)(d) accurately and 
completely. 

(b)Record on the prescription, or by any electronic means, the requesting 
pharmacy and pharmacist and the date of request. 

(c)Cancel the prescription on file by electronic means or by recording the word 
"void" on the prescription record. No further prescription information shall be given 
or medication dispensed pursuant to the original prescription. 

(3)If a transferred prescription is not dispensed within a reasonable time, the 
pharmacist shall, by any means, so notify the transferring pharmacy. Such notice 
shall serve to revalidate the canceled prescription. The pharmacist who has served 
such notice shall then cancel the prescription in the same manner as set forth in 
paragraph (2)(c). 

(4)In the case of a prescription to be transferred from or to a pharmacy located in 
another state, it shall be the responsibility of the pharmacist or pharmacy located in 
the State of Florida to verify, whether by electronic means or otherwise, that the 
person or entity involved in the transfer is a licensed pharmacist or pharmacy in the 
other state. 

(5)Electronic transfers of prescriptions are permitted regardless of whether the 
transferor or transferee pharmacy is open for business. 

(6)The transfer of a prescription for medicinal drugs listed in Schedules III, IV, and 
V appearing in chapter 893 for the purpose of refill dispensing is permissible, subject 
to the requirements of this section and federal law. Compliance with federal law shall 
be deemed compliance with the requirements of this section. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; s. 1, ch. 85-71; ss. 17, 26, 27, 
ch. 86-256; s. 1, ch. 90-2; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 
247, ch. 97-103; s. 93, ch. 97-264; s. 4, ch. 2004-25; s. 9, ch. 2004-387; s. 1, ch. 
2006-243. 

465.0265 Centralized prescription filling.— 
(1)A pharmacy licensed under this chapter may perform centralized prescription 

filling for another pharmacy, provided that the pharmacies have the same owner or 
have a written contract specifying the services to be provided by each pharmacy, the 
responsibilities of each pharmacy, and the manner in which the pharmacies will 
comply with federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. 

(2)Each pharmacy performing or contracting for the performance of centralized 
prescription filling pursuant to this section must maintain a policy and procedures 
manual, which shall be made available to the board or its agent upon request. The 
policy and procedures manual shall include the following information: 

(a)A description of how each pharmacy will comply with federal and state laws, 
rules, and regulations. 



(b)The procedure for maintaining appropriate records to identify the pharmacist 
responsible for dispensing the prescription and counseling the patient. 

(c)The procedure for tracking the prescription during each stage of the filling and 
dispensing process. 

(d)The procedure for identifying on the prescription label all pharmacies involved in 
filling and dispensing the prescription. 

(e)The policy and procedure for providing adequate security to protect the 
confidentiality and integrity of patient information. 

(f)The procedure to be used by the pharmacy in implementing and operating a 

quality assurance program designed to objectively and systematically monitor, 
evaluate, and improve the quality and appropriateness of patient care. 

(3)The filling, delivery, and return of a prescription by one pharmacy for another 
pursuant to this section shall not be construed as the filling of a transferred 
prescription as set forth in s. 465.026 or as a wholesale distribution as set forth in s. 
499.003(54). 

(4)The board shall adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 necessary to 
implement this section. 
History.—s. 2, ch. 2002-182; s. 40, ch. 2008-207; s. 38, ch. 2010-161. 

465.0266 Common database.—Nothing contained in this chapter shall be construed 
to prohibit the dispensing by a pharmacist licensed in this state or another state of a 

prescription contained in a common database, and such dispensing shall not 
constitute a transfer as defined in s. 465.026(1)-(6), provided that the following 
conditions are met: 

(1)All pharmacies involved in the transactions pursuant to which the prescription is 
dispensed are under common ownership and utilize a common database. 

(2)All pharmacies involved in the transactions pursuant to which the prescription is 
dispensed and all pharmacists engaging in dispensing functions are properly 
licensed, permitted, or registered in this state or another state. 

(3)The common database maintains a record of all pharmacists involved in the 
process of dispensing a prescription. 

(4)The owner of the common database maintains a policy and procedures manual 
that governs its participating pharmacies, pharmacists, and pharmacy employees 
and that is available to the board or its agent upon request. The policy and 
procedures manual shall include the following information: 

(a)A best practices model detailing how each pharmacy and each pharmacist 
accessing the common database will comply with applicable federal and state laws, 
rules, and regulations. 

(b)The procedure for maintaining appropriate records for regulatory oversight for 
tracking a prescription during each stage of the filling and dispensing process, 
identifying the pharmacists involved in filling and dispensing the prescription and 
counseling the patient, and responding to any requests for information made by the 
board under s. 465.0156. 

(c)The policy and procedure for providing adequate security to protect the 
confidentiality and integrity of patient information. 

(d)A quality assurance program designed to objectively and systematically 
monitor, evaluate, and improve the quality and appropriateness of patient care 
through the use of the common database. 

Any pharmacist dispensing a prescription has at all times the right and obligation to exercise 
his or her independent professional judgment. Notwithstanding other provisions in this section, 
no pharmacist licensed in this state participating in the dispensing of a prescription pursuant to 



this section shalL be responsible for the acts and omissions of another person participating in 
the dispensing process provided such person is not under the direct supervision and control of 
the pharmacist Licensed in this state. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2006-243. 

465.027 Exceptions.—This chapter shall not be construed to prohibit the sale of 
home remedies or preparations commonly known as patents or proprietary 
preparations, when such are sold only in original or unbroken packages, nor shall 
this chapter be construed to prevent businesses from engaging in the sale of 
sundries or patents or proprietary preparations. 
History.—ss. 1, 7, ch. 79-226; ss. 2, 3, ch. 81-318; ss. 18, 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 

59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

465.0275 Emergency prescription refill.—In the event a pharmacist receives a 

request for a prescription refill and the pharmacist is unable to readily obtain refill 
authorization from the prescriber, the pharmacist may dispense a one-time 
emergency refill of up to a 72-hour supply of the prescribed medication, with the 
exception of those areas or counties included in an emergency order or proclamation 
of a state of emergency declared by the Governor, in which the executive order may 
authorize the pharmacist to dispense up to a 30-day supply, providing that: 

(1)The prescription is not for a medicinal drug listed in Schedule II appearing in 
chapter 893. 

(2)The medication is essential to the maintenance of life or to the continuation of 
therapy in a chronic condition. 

(3)In the pharmacist's professional judgment, the interruption of therapy might 
reasonably produce undesirable health consequences or may cause physical or 
mental discomfort. 

(4)The dispensing pharmacist creates a written order containing all of the 
prescription information required by this chapter and chapters 499 and 893 and 
signs that order. 

(5)The dispensing pharmacist notifies the prescriber of the emergency dispensing 
within a reasonable time after such dispensing. 
History.—ss. 19, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 3, ch. 89-77; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 30, ch. 93-211. 

465.0276 Dispensing practitioner.— 
(1)(a)A person may not dispense medicinal drugs unless licensed as a pharmacist 

or otherwise authorized under this chapter to do so, except that a practitioner 
authorized by law to prescribe drugs may dispense such drugs to her or his patients 
in the regular course of her or his practice in compliance with this section. 

(b)A practitioner registered under this section may not dispense a controlled 
substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III as provided in s. 893.03. This 
paragraph does not apply to: 

1.The dispensing of complimentary packages of medicinal drugs which are labeled 
as a drug sample or complimentary drug as defined in s. 499.028 to the 
practitioner's own patients in the regular course of her or his practice without the 
payment of a fee or remuneration of any kind, whether direct or indirect, as provided 
in subsection (5). 

2.The dispensing of controlled substances in the health care system of the 
Department of Corrections. 



3.The dispensing of a controlled substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III in 
connection with the performance of a surgical procedure. The amount dispensed 
pursuant to the subparagraph may not exceed a 14-day supply. This exception does 
not allow for the dispensing of a controlled substance listed in Schedule II or 
Schedule III more than 14 days after the performance of the surgical procedure. For 
purposes of this subparagraph, the term "surgical procedure" means any procedure 
in any setting which involves, or reasonably should involve: 

a.Perioperative medication and sedation that allows the patient to tolerate 
unpleasant procedures while maintaining adequate cardiorespiratory function and the 
ability to respond purposefully to verbal or tactile stimulation and makes intra- and 
postoperative monitoring necessary; or 

b.The use of general anesthesia or major conduction anesthesia and preoperative 
sedation. 

4.The dispensing of a controlled substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III 
pursuant to an approved clinical trial. For purposes of this subparagraph, the term 
"approved clinical trial" means a clinical research study or clinical investigation that, 
in whole or in part, is state or federally funded or is conducted under an 
investigational new drug application that is reviewed by the United States Food and 
Drug Administration. 

5.The dispensing of methadone in a facility licensed under s. 397.427 where 
medication-assisted treatment for opiate addiction is provided. 

6.The dispensing of a controlled substance listed in Schedule II or Schedule III to a 

patient of a facility licensed under part IV of chapter 400. 
(2)A practitioner who dispenses medicinal drugs for human consumption for fee or 

remuneration of any kind, whether direct or indirect, must: 
(a)Register with her or his professional licensing board as a dispensing practitioner 

and pay a fee not to exceed $100 at the time of such registration and upon each 
renewal of her or his license. Each appropriate board shall establish such fee by rule. 

(b)Comply with and be subject to all laws and rules applicable to pharmacists and 
pharmacies, including, but not limited to, this chapter and chapters 499 and 893 and 
all federal laws and federal regulations. 

(c)Before dispensing any drug, give the patient a written prescription and orally or 
in writing advise the patient that the prescription may be filled in the practitioner's 
office or at any pharmacy. 

(3)The department shall inspect any facility where a practitioner dispenses 
medicinal drugs pursuant to subsection (2) in the same manner and with the same 
frequency as it inspects pharmacies for the purpose of determining whether the 
practitioner is in compliance with all statutes and rules applicable to her or his 
dispensing practice. 

(4)The registration of any practitioner who has been found by her or his respective 
board to have dispensed medicinal drugs in violation of this chapter shall be subject 
to suspension or revocation. 

(5)A practitioner who confines her or his activities to the dispensing of 
complimentary packages of medicinal drugs to the practitioner's own patients in the 
regular course of her or his practice, without the payment of fee or remuneration of 
any kind, whether direct or indirect, and who herself or himself dispenses such drugs 
is not required to register pursuant to this section. The practitioner must dispense 
such drugs in the manufacturer's labeled package with the practitioner's name, 
patient's name, and date dispensed, or, if such drugs are not dispensed in the 
manufacturer's labeled package, they must be dispensed in a container which bears 
the following information: 

(a)Practitioner's name; 
(b)Patient's name; 



(c)Date dispensed; 
(d)Name and strength of drug; and 
(e)Directions for use. 

History.—ss. 20, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 1, ch. 88-159; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91- 
156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 95, ch. 92-149; s. 248, ch. 97-103; s. 11, ch. 2010-211; s. 
15, ch. 2011-141. 

465.035 Dispensing of medicinal drugs pursuant to facsimile of prescription.— 
(1)Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, it is lawful for a pharmacy 

to dispense medicinal drugs, including controlled substances authorized under 
subsection (2), based on reception of an electronic facsimile of the original 
prescription if all of the following conditions are met: 

(a)In the course of the transaction the pharmacy complies with laws and 
administrative rules relating to pharmacies and pharmacists. 

(b)Except in the case of the transmission of a prescription by a person authorized 
by law to prescribe medicinal drugs: 

1.The facsimile system making the transmission provides the pharmacy receiving 
the transmission with audio communication via telephonic, electronic, or similar 
means with the person presenting the prescription. 

2.At the time of the delivery of the medicinal drugs, the pharmacy has in its 
possession the original prescription for the medicinal drug involved. 

3.The recipient of the prescription shall sign a log and shall indicate the name and 
address of both the recipient and the patient for whom the medicinal drug was 
prescribed. 

(2)Controlled substances listed in Schedule II as defined in s. 893.03(2) may be 
dispensed as provided in this section to the extent allowed by 21 C.F.R. s. 1306.11. 
History.—s. 5, ch. 90-341; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 8, ch. 91-201; s. 
4, ch. 9 1-429; s. 94, ch. 97-264; s. 5, ch. 99-186. 

465.185 Rebates prohibited; penalties.— 
(1)It is unlawful for any person to pay or receive any commission, bonus, kickback, 

or rebate or engage in any split-fee arrangement in any form whatsoever with any 
physician, surgeon, organization, agency, or person, either directly or indirectly, for 
patients referred to a pharmacy registered under this chapter. 

(2)The department shall adopt rules which assess administrative penalties for acts 
prohibited by subsection (1). In the case of an entity licensed by the department, 
such penalties may include any disciplinary action available to the department under 
the appropriate licensing laws. In the case of an entity not licensed by the 
department, such penalties may include: 

(a)A fine not to exceed $1,000. 
(b)If applicable, a recommendation by the department to the appropriate 

regulatory agency that disciplinary action be taken. 
History.—s. 2, ch. 79-106; s. 326, ch. 81-259; s. 2, ch. 81-318; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86- 
256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 125, ch. 92-149. 

465.186 Pharmacist's order for medicinal drugs; dispensing procedure; 
development of form ulary.— 

(1)There is hereby created a committee composed of two members of the Board of 
Medicine licensed under chapter 458 chosen by said board, one member of the Board 
of Osteopathic Medicine licensed under chapter 459 chosen by said board, three 
members of the Board of Pharmacy licensed under this chapter and chosen by said 
board, and one additional person with a background in health care or pharmacology 



chosen by the committee. The committee shall establish a formulary of medicinal 
drug products and dispensing procedures which shall be used by a pharmacist when 
ordering and dispensing such drug products to the public. Dispensing procedures 
may include matters related to reception of patient, description of his or her 
condition, patient interview, patient physician referral, product selection, and 
dispensing and use limitations. In developing the formulary of medicinal drug 
products, the committee may include products falling within the following categories: 

(a)Any medicinal drug of single or multiple active ingredients in any strengths 
when such active ingredients have been approved individually or in combination for 
over-the-counter sale by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(b)Any medicinal drug recommended by the United States Food and Drug 
Administration Advisory Panel for transfer to over-the-counter status pending 
approval by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(c)Any medicinal drug containing any antihistamine or decongestant as a single 
active ingredient or in combination. 

(d)Any medicinal drug containing fluoride in any strength. 
(e)Any medicinal drug containing lindane in any strength. 
(f)Any over-the-counter proprietary drug under federal law that has been approved 

for reimbursement by the Florida Medicaid Program. 
(g)Any topical anti-infectives excluding eye and ear topical anti-infectives. 

However, any drug which is sold as an over-the-counter proprietary drug under federal Law 

shall not be included in the formulary or otherwise affected by this section. 

(2)The Board of Pharmacy, the Board of Medicine, and the Board of Osteopathic 
Medicine shall adopt by rule a formulary of medicinal drugs and dispensing 
procedures as established by the committee. A pharmacist may order and dispense a 

product from the formulary pursuant to the established dispensing procedure, as 
adopted by the boards, for each drug in conjunction with its inclusion in the 
formulary. Any drug product ordered by a pharmacist shall be selected and 
dispensed only by the pharmacist so ordering, and said order shall not be refilled, 
nor shall another medicinal drug be ordered for the same condition unless such act is 
consistent with dispensing procedures established by the committee. Appropriate 
referral to another health care provider is indicated under such circumstances. On 
each occasion of such dispensing, the pharmacist shall create and maintain a 

prescription record in the form required by law. 
(3)Affixed to the container containing a medicinal drug dispensed pursuant to this 

section shall be a label bearing the following information: 
(a)The name of the pharmacist ordering the medication. 
(b)The name and address of the pharmacy from which the medication was 

dispensed. 
(c)The date of dispensing. 
(d)The order number or other identification adequate to readily identify the order. 
(e)The name of the patient for whom the medicinal drug was ordered. 
(f)The directions for use of the medicinal drug ordered. 
(g)A clear, concise statement that the order may not be refilled. 
(4)Any pharmacist performing the services authorized by this section shall be 

eligible for reimbursement by third party prescription programs when so provided by 
contract or when otherwise provided by such program. 

(5)Any person ordering or dispensing medicinal drugs in violation of this section 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, and such violation shall be 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 



History.—ss. 2, 3, ch. 85-35; ss. 26, 27, ch. 86-256; S. 56, ch. 87-225; S. 59, ch. 
91-137; s. 21, ch. 91-140; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 21, ch. 91-220; s. 92, ch. 91-224; s. 
4, ch. 91-429; s. 96, ch. 92-149; s. 249, ch. 97-103; s. 95, ch. 97-264. 

465.187 Sale of medicinal drugs.—The sale of medicinal drugs dispensed upon the 
order of a practitioner pursuant to this chapter shall be entitled to the exemption 
from sales tax provided for in s. 212.08. 
History.—ss. 21, 27, ch. 86-256; s. 59, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-156; s. 4, ch. 91- 
429. 

465.188 Medicaid audits of pharmacies.— 
(1)Notwithstanding any other law, when an audit of the Medicaid-related records of 

a pharmacy licensed under chapter 465 is conducted, such audit must be conducted 
as provided in this section. 

(a)The agency conducting the audit must give the pharmacist at least 1 week's 
prior notice of the initial audit for each audit cycle. 

(b)An audit must be conducted by a pharmacist licensed in this state. 
(c)Any clerical or recordkeeping error, such as a typographical error, scrivener's 

error, or computer error regarding a document or record required under the Medicaid 
program does not constitute a willful violation and is not subject to criminal penalties 
without proof of intent to commit fraud. 

(d)A pharmacist may use the physician's record or other order for drugs or 
medicinal supplies written or transmitted by any means of communication for 
purposes of validating the pharmacy record with respect to orders or refills of a 

legend or narcotic drug. 
(e)A finding of an overpayment or underpayment must be based on the actual 

overpayment or underpayment and may not be a projection based on the number of 
patients served having a similar diagnosis or on the number of similar orders or 
refills for similar drugs. 

(f)Each pharmacy shall be audited under the same standards and parameters. 
(g)A pharmacist must be allowed at least 10 days in which to produce 

documentation to address any discrepancy found during an audit. 
(h)The period covered by an audit may not exceed 1 calendar year. 
(i)An audit may not be scheduled during the first 5 days of any month due to the 

high volume of prescriptions filled during that time. 
(j)The audit report must be delivered to the pharmacist within 90 days after 

conclusion of the audit. A final audit report shall be delivered to the pharmacist 
within 6 months after receipt of the preliminary audit report or final appeal, as 
provided for in subsection (2), whichever is later. 

(k)The audit criteria set forth in this section applies only to audits of claims 
submitted for payment subsequent to July 11, 2003. Notwithstanding any other 
provision in this section, the agency conducting the audit shall not use the 
accounting practice of extrapolation in calculating penalties for Medicaid audits. 

(2)The Agency for Health Care Administration shall establish a process under which 
a pharmacist may obtain a preliminary review of an audit report and may appeal an 
unfavorable audit report without the necessity of obtaining legal counsel. The 
preliminary review and appeal may be conducted by an ad hoc peer review panel, 
appointed by the agency, which consists of pharmacists who maintain an active 
practice. If, following the preliminary review, the agency or review panel finds that 
an unfavorable audit report is unsubstantiated, the agency shall dismiss the audit 
report without the necessity of any further proceedings. 



(3)This section does not apply to investigative audits conducted by the Medicaid 
Fraud Control Unit of the Department of Legal Affairs. 

(4)This section does not apply to any investigative audit conducted by the Agency 
for Health Care Administration when the agency has reliable evidence that the claim 
that is the subject of the audit involves fraud, willful misrepresentation, or abuse 
under the Medicaid program. 
History.—s. 1, ch. 2003-277; s. 11, ch. 2004-344. 

465.189 Administration of vaccines and epinephrine autoinjection.— 
(1)In accordance with guidelines of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

for each recommended immunization or vaccine, a pharmacist may administer the 
following vaccines to an adult within the framework of an established protocol under 
a supervising physician licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459: 

(a)Influenza vaccine. 
(b)Pneumococcal vaccine. 
(2)In accordance with guidelines of the Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention, a pharmacist may administer the shingles vaccine within the framework 
of an established protocol and pursuant to a written or electronic prescription issued 
to the patient by a physician licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459. 

(3)In order to address any unforeseen allergic reaction, a pharmacist may 
administer epinephrine using an autoinjector delivery system within the framework 
of an established protocol under a supervising physician licensed under chapter 458 
or chapter 459. 

(4)A pharmacist may not enter into a protocol unless he or she maintains at least 
$200,000 of professional liability insurance and has completed training in 
administering vaccines authorized under this section. 

(5)A pharmacist administering vaccines under this section shall maintain and make 
available patient records using the same standards for confidentiality and 
maintenance of such records as those that are imposed on health care practitioners 
under s. 456.057. These records shall be maintained for a minimum of 5 years. 

(6)The decision by a supervising physician licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 
459 to enter into a protocol under this section is a professional decision on the part 
of the practitioner, and a person may not interfere with a physician's decision as to 
entering into such a protocol. A pharmacist may not enter into a protocol that is to 
be performed while acting as an employee without the written approval of the owner 
of the pharmacy. Pharmacists shall forward vaccination records to the department 
for inclusion in the state registry of immunization information. 

(7)Any pharmacist seeking to administer vaccines to adults under this section must 
be certified to administer such vaccines pursuant to a certification program approved 
by the Board of Pharmacy in consultation with the Board of Medicine and the Board 
of Osteopathic Medicine. The certification program shall, at a minimum, require that 
the pharmacist attend at least 20 hours of continuing education classes approved by 
the board. The program shall have a curriculum of instruction concerning the safe 
and effective administration of such vaccines, including, but not limited to, potential 
allergic reactions to such vaccines. 

(8)The written protocol between the pharmacist and supervising physician under 
this section must include particular terms and conditions imposed by the supervising 
physician upon the pharmacist relating to the administration of vaccines by the 
pharmacist pursuant to this section. The written protocol shall include, at a 

minimum, specific categories and conditions among patients for whom the 
supervising physician authorizes the pharmacist to administer such vaccines. The 
terms, scope, and conditions set forth in the written protocol between the pharmacist 



and the supervising physician must be appropriate to the pharmacist's training and 
certification for administering such vaccines. Pharmacists who have been delegated 
the authority to administer vaccines under this section by the supervising physician 
under the protocol shall provide evidence of current certification by the Board of 
Pharmacy to the supervising physician. A supervising physician shall review the 
administration of such vaccines by the pharmacist pursuant to the written protocol 
between them, and this review shall take place as outlined in the written protocol. 
The process and schedule for the review shall be outlined in the written protocol 
between the pharmacist and the supervising physician. 

(9)The pharmacist shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy a copy of his or her 
protocol or written agreement to administer vaccines under this section. 
History.—s. 3, ch. 2007-152; s. 1, ch. 2012-60. 

465.1901 Practice of orthotics and pedorthics.—The provisions of chapter 468 
relating to orthotics or pedorthics do not apply to any licensed pharmacist or to any 
person acting under the supervision of a licensed pharmacist. The practice of 
orthotics or pedorthics by a pharmacist or any of the pharmacist's employees acting 
under the supervision of a pharmacist shall be construed to be within the meaning of 
the term "practice of the profession of pharmacy" as set forth in s. 465.003(13), and 
shall be subject to regulation in the same manner as any other pharmacy practice. 
The Board of Pharmacy shall develop rules regarding the practice of orthotics and 
pedorthics by a pharmacist. Any pharmacist or person under the supervision of a 

pharmacist engaged in the practice of orthotics or pedorthics is not precluded from 
continuing that practice pending adoption of these rules. 
History.—s. 3, ch. 2009-202. 



Title XLVI ChaDter 893 View Entire ChaDter 
CRIMES DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

CHAPTER 893 

DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

893.01 Short title. 

893 .O2Definitions. 

893.O3Standards and schedules. 

893.0301 Death resulting from apparent drug overdose; reporting requirements. 

893.031 Industrial exceptions to controlled substance scheduling. 

893.O33Listed chemicals. 

893.O35Control of new substances; findings of fact; delegation of authority to Attorney General 

to control substances by rule. 

893.O355Control of scheduled substances; delegation of authority to Attorney General to 

reschedule substance, or delete substance, by rule. 

893.O356Control of new substances; findings of fact; "controlled substance analog" defined. 

893.O4Pharmacist and practitioner. 

893.O5Practitioners and persons administering controlled substances in their absence. 

893 .O55Prescription drug monitoring program. 

893.0551 Public records exemption for the prescription drug monitoring program. 

893.O6Distribution of controlled substances; order forms; labeling and packaging requirements. 

893.O65Counterfeit-resistant prescription blanks for controlled substances listed in Schedule II, 

Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V. 

893.O7Records. 

893 .O8Exceptions. 

893 .O9Enforcement. 

893.l0Burden of proof; photograph or video recording of evidence. 

893.101 Legislative findings and intent. 

893.loslesting and destruction of seized substances. 

893.llSuspension, revocation, and reinstatement of business and professional licenses. 

893.1 2Contraband; seizure, forfeiture, sale. 

893.1 3Prohibited acts; penalties. 

893.l3slrafficking; mandatory sentences; suspension or reduction of sentences; conspiracy to 

engage in trafficking. 

893.l35lOwnership, lease, rental, or possession for trafficking in or manufacturing a controlled 

substance. 

893.l38Local administrative action to abate drug-related, prostitution-related, or stolen- 



property-related public nuisances and criminal gang activity. 

893.145"Drug paraphernalia" defined. 

893.l46Determination of paraphernalia. 

893.l47Use, possession, manufacture, delivery, transportation, or advertisement of drug 

paraphernalia. 

893.l49Unlawful possession of listed chemical. 

893.l495Retail sale of ephedrine and related compounds. 

893.1 5Rehabilitation. 

893.l65County alcohol and other drug abuse treatment or education trust funds. 

893.2OContinuing criminal enterprise. 

893.21 Drug-related overdoses; medical assistance; immunity from prosecution. 

893.OlShort title.—This chapter shall be cited and known as the "Florida Comprehensive Drug 

Abuse Prevention and Control Act." 

History.—s. 1, ch. 73-331. 

893.O2Definitions.—The following words and phrases as used in this chapter shall have the 

following meanings, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1 )"Administer" means the direct application of a controlled substance, whether by injection, 

inhalation, ingestion, or any other means, to the body of a person or animal. 

(2)"Analog" or "chemical analog" means a structural derivative of a parent compound that is a 

controlled substance. 

(3)"Cannabis" means all parts of any plant of the genus Cannabis, whether growing or not; the 

seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every compound, manufacture, 

salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its seeds or resin. 

(4)"Controlled substance" means any substance named or described in Schedules I-V of s. 

893.03. Laws controlling the manufacture, distribution, preparation, dispensing, or administration 

of such substances are drug abuse laws. 

(5)"Cultivating" means the preparation of any soil or hydroponic medium for the planting of a 

controlled substance or the tending and care or harvesting of a controlled substance. 

(6)"Deliver" or "delivery" means the actual, constructive, or attempted transfer from one 

person to another of a controlled substance, whether or not there is an agency relationship. 

(7)"Dispense" means the transfer of possession of one or more doses of a medicinal drug by a 

pharmacist or other licensed practitioner to the ultimate consumer thereof or to one who 

represents that it is his or her intention not to consume or use the same but to transfer the same to 

the ultimate consumer or user for consumption by the ultimate consumer or user. 

(8)"Distribute" means to deliver, other than by administering or dispensing, a controlled 

substance. 



(9)"Distributor" means a person who distributes. 

(10)"Department" means the Department of Health. 

(11 )"Homologue" means a chemical compound in a series in which each compound differs by 

one or more alkyl functional groups on an alkyl side chain. 

(12)"Hospital" means an institution for the care and treatment of the sick and injured, 

licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 395 or owned or operated by the state or Federal 

Government. 

(13)"Laboratory" means a laboratory approved by the Drug Enforcement Administration as 

proper to be entrusted with the custody of controlled substances for scientific, medical, or 

instructional purposes or to aid law enforcement officers and prosecuting attorneys in the 

enforcement of this chapter. 

(14)"Listed chemical" means any precursor chemical or essential chemical named or described 

in s. 893.033. 

(15) (a)"Manufacture" means the production, preparation, propagation, compounding, 

cultivating, growing, conversion, or processing of a controlled substance, either directly or 

indirectly, by extraction from substances of natural origin, or independently by means of chemical 

synthesis, or by a combination of extraction and chemical synthesis, and includes any packaging of 

the substance or labeling or relabeling of its container, except that this term does not include the 

preparation, compounding, packaging, or labeling of a controlled substance by: 

1 .A practitioner or pharmacist as an incident to his or her administering or delivering of a 

controlled substance in the course of his or her professional practice. 

2.A practitioner, or by his or her authorized agent under the practitioner's supervision, for the 

purpose of, or as an incident to, research, teaching, or chemical analysis, and not for sale. 

(b)"Manufacturer" means and includes every person who prepares, derives, produces, 

compounds, or repackages any drug as defined by the Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act. However, this 

definition does not apply to manufacturers of patent or proprietary preparations as defined in the 

Florida Pharmacy Act. Pharmacies, and pharmacists employed thereby, are specifically excluded 

from this definition. 

(16)"Mixture" means any physical combination of two or more substances. 

(17)"Patient" means an individual to whom a controlled substance is lawfully dispensed or 

administered pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. 

(18)"Pharmacist" means a person who is licensed pursuant to chapter 465 to practice the 

profession of pharmacy in this state. 

(19)"Possession" includes temporary possession for the purpose of verification or testing, 

irrespective of dominion or control. 

(20)"Potential for abuse" means that a substance has properties of a central nervous system 



stimulant or depressant or an hallucinogen that create a substantial likelihood of its being: 

(a)Used in amounts that create a hazard to the user's health or the safety of the community; 

(b)Diverted from legal channels and distributed through illegal channels; or 

(c)Taken on the user's own initiative rather than on the basis of professional medical advice. 

Proof of potential for abuse can be based upon a showing that these activities are already taking 

place, or upon a showing that the nature and properties of the substance make it reasonable to 

assume that there is a substantial likelihood that such activities will take place, in other than 

isolated or occasional instances. 

(21 )"Practitioner" means a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458, a dentist licensed 

pursuant to chapter 466, a veterinarian licensed pursuant to chapter 474, an osteopathic physician 

licensed pursuant to chapter 459, a naturopath licensed pursuant to chapter 462, or a podiatric 

physician licensed pursuant to chapter 461, provided such practitioner holds a valid federal 

controlled substance registry number. 

(22)"Prescription" means and includes an order for drugs or medicinal supplies written, 

signed, or transmitted by word of mouth, telephone, telegram, or other means of communication 

by a duly licensed practitioner licensed by the laws of the state to prescribe such drugs or 

medicinal supplies, issued in good faith and in the course of professional practice, intended to be 

filled, compounded, or dispensed by another person licensed by the laws of the state to do so, and 

meeting the requirements of s. 893.04. The term also includes an order for drugs or medicinal 

supplies so transmitted or written by a physician, dentist, veterinarian, or other practitioner 

licensed to practice in a state other than Florida, but only if the pharmacist called upon to fill such 

an order determines, in the exercise of his or her professional judgment, that the order was issued 

pursuant to a valid patient-physician relationship, that it is authentic, and that the drugs or 

medicinal supplies so ordered are considered necessary for the continuation of treatment of a 

chronic or recurrent illness. However, if the physician writing the prescription is not known to the 

pharmacist, the pharmacist shall obtain proof to a reasonable certainty of the validity of said 

prescription. A prescription order for a controlled substance shall not be issued on the same 

prescription blank with another prescription order for a controlled substance which is named or 

described in a different schedule, nor shall any prescription order for a controlled substance be 

issued on the same prescription blank as a prescription order for a medicinal drug, as defined in s. 

465.003(8), which does not fall within the definition of a controlled substance as defined in this 

act. 

(23)"Wholesaler" means any person who acts as a jobber, wholesale merchant, or broker, or 

an agent thereof, who sells or distributes for resale any drug as defined by the Florida Drug and 

Cosmetic Act. However, this definition does not apply to persons who sell only patent or 

proprietary preparations as defined in the Florida Pharmacy Act. Pharmacies, and pharmacists 



employed thereby, are specifically excluded from this definition. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 75-18; s. 470, ch. 77-147; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 184, ch. 79-164; s. 1, ch. 79-325; 

s. 37, ch. 82-225; s. 169, ch. 83-216; s. 1, ch. 85-242; s. 1, ch. 91-279; s. 1, ch. 92-19; s. 1434, ch. 97-102; s. 104, 

ch. 97-264; s. 234, ch. 98-166; s. 300, ch. 99-8; s. 10, ch. 99-186; s. 1, ch. 2000-320; s. 3, ch. 2001 -55; S. 10, ch. 

2002-78; s. 13, ch. 2005-128; s. 1, ch. 2008-184; s. 18, ch. 2010-117; s. 1, ch. 2011-73. 

893.O3Standards and schedules.—The substances enumerated in this section are controlled 

by this chapter. The controlled substances listed or to be listed in Schedules I, II, III, IV, and V are 

included by whatever official, common, usual, chemical, or trade name designated. The provisions 

of this section shall not be construed to include within any of the schedules contained in this 

section any excluded drugs listed within the purview of 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.22, styled "Excluded 

Substances"; 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.24, styled "Exempt Chemical Preparations"; 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.32, 

styled "Exempted Prescription Products"; or 21 C.F.R. s. 1308.34, styled "Exempt Anabolic Steroid 

Products." 

(1)SCHEDULE 1.—A substance in Schedule I has a high potential for abuse and has no currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States and in its use under medical supervision 

does not meet accepted safety standards. The following substances are controlled in Schedule I: 

(a)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

substances, including their isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers, 

whenever the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible within the specific 

chemical designation: 

1 .Acetyl-alpha-methylfentanyl. 

2 .Acetylmethadol. 

3.Allylprodine. 

4.Alphacetylmethadol (except levo-alphacetylmethadol, also known as levo-alpha- 

acetylmethadol, levomethadyl acetate, or LAAM). 

5 .Alphamethadol. 

6.Alpha-methylfentanyl (N- 1 - (alpha-methyl-betaphenyl) ethyl-4-piperidyl] propionanilide; 1 - 

(1 -methyl-2-phenylethyl)-4-(N-propanilido) piperidine). 

7.Alpha-methylthiofentanyl. 

8 .Alphameprodine. 

9.Benzethidine. 

10.Benzylfentanyl. 

11 .Betacetylmethadol. 

12.Beta-hydroxyfentanyl. 

1 3.Beta-hydroxy-3-methylfentanyl. 

14.Betameprodine. 



1 5.Betamethadol. 

16.Betaprodine. 

1 7.Clonitazene. 

18.Dextromoramide. 

19.Diampromide. 

20. Diethylthiambutene. 

21 .Difenoxin. 

22. Dimenoxadol. 

23. Dimepheptanol. 

24. Dimethylthiambutene. 

25.Dioxaphetyl butyrate. 

26.Dipipanone. 

27. Ethylmethylthiambutene. 

28.Etonitazene. 

29.Etoxeridine. 

30.Flunitrazepam. 

31 .Furethidine. 

32. Hydroxypethidine. 

33.Ketobemidone. 

34.Levomoramide. 

35. Levophenacylmorphan. 

36.1 -Methyl-4-Phenyl-4-Propionoxypiperidine (MPPP). 

37.3-Methylfentanyl (N- 

3-methyl-i - (2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidyl] -N -phenyipropanamide). 

38. 3-Methylthiofentanyl. 

39.3, 4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine 

(MDMA). 

40.Morpheridine. 

41 .Noracymethadol. 

42. Norlevorphanol. 

43. Normethadone. 

44.Norpipanone. 

45. Para-Fluorofentanyl. 

46.Phenadoxone. 

47. Phenampromide. 

48.Phenomorphan. 



49. Phenoperidine. 

50.1 - (2-Phenylethyl)-4- Phenyl-4-Acetyloxypiperidine (PEPAP). 

51 .Piritramide. 

52.Proheptazine. 

53.Properidine. 

54.Propiram. 

55.Racemoramide. 

56 .Thenylfentanyl. 

57.Thiofentanyl. 

58.Tilidine. 

59 .Trimeperidi ne. 

(b)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

substances, their salts, isomers, and salts of isomers, whenever the existence of such salts, 

isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation: 

1 .Acetorphine. 

2 .Acetyldihydrocodeine. 

3. Benzylmorphine. 

4.Codeine methylbromide. 

5.Codeine-N-Oxide. 

6.Cyprenorphine. 

7. Desomorphine. 

8. Dihydromorphine. 

9.Drotebanol. 

10. Etorphine (except hydrochloride salt). 

11. Heroin 

12.Hydromorphinol. 

1 3.Methyldesorphine. 

1 4.Methyldihydromorphine. 

1 5.Monoacetylmorphine. 

1 6.Morphine methylbromide. 

1 7.Morphine methylsulfonate. 

18.Morphine-N -Oxide. 

19.Myrophine. 

20.Nicocodine. 

21 .Nicomorphine. 

22.Normorphine. 



23.Pholcodine. 

24.Thebacon. 

(c)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation that contains any quantity of the following hallucinogenic substances or 

that contains any of their salts, isomers, and salts of isomers, if the existence of such salts, 

isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation: 

1 .Alpha-ethyltryptamine. 

2.2-Amino-4-methyl-5-phenyl-2-oxazoline (4-methylaminorex). 

3.2-Amino-5-phenyl-2-oxazoline (Aminorex). 

4.4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine. 

5 .4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine. 

6. Bufotenine. 

7.Cannabis. 

8.Cathinone. 

9. Diethyltryptamine. 

10.2, 5-Dimethoxyamphetamine. 

11 .2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine (DOET). 

12.Dimethyltryptamine. 

13.N-Ethyl-1-phenylcyclohexylamine (PCE) (Ethylamine analog of phencyclidine). 

14.N-Ethyl-3-piperidyl benzilate. 

1 5.N-ethylamphetamine. 

1 6.Fenethylline. 

17.N-Hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine. 

18.Ibogaine. 

19. Lysergic acid diethylamide (LSD). 

20 .Mescali ne. 

21 .Methcathinone. 

22. 5-Methoxy-3 ,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine. 

23.4-methoxyamphetamine. 

24.4-methoxymethamphetamine. 

25 .4-Methyl-2, 5 -dimethoxyamphetamine. 

26. 3,4-Methylenedioxy-N-ethylamphetamine. 

27. 3,4-Methylenedioxyamphetamine. 

28. N-Methyl-3-piperidyl benzilate. 

29. N, N -dimethylamphetamine. 

30.Parahexyl. 



31 .Peyote. 

32. N- (1 - Phenylcyclohexyl)-pyrrolidine (PCPY) (Pyrrolidine analog of phencyclidine). 

33. Psi locybi n. 

34. Psi locyn. 

35.Salvia divinorum, except for any drug product approved by the United States Food and 

Drug Administration which contains Salvia divinorum or its isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts 

of isomers, esters, and ethers, if the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible 

within the specific chemical designation. 

36.Salvinorin A, except for any drug product approved by the United States Food and Drug 

Administration which contains Salvinorin A or its isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, 

esters, and ethers, if the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible within the 

specific chemical designation. 

37.Tetrahydrocannabinols. 

38.1 1 - (2-Thienyl)-cyclohexyl] -piperidine (TCP) (Thiophene analog of phencyclidine). 

39.3,4, 5-Trimethoxyamphetamine. 

40. 3,4-Methylenedioxymethcathinone. 

41 . 3,4-Methylenedioxypyrovalerone (MDPV). 

42 .Methylmethcathinone. 

43 .Methoxymethcathinone. 

44. Fluoromethcathinone. 

45 .Methylethcathinone. (1 R,35)-3-hydroxycyclohexyl]-5-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)phenol, also known as CP 47,497 

and its dimethyloctyl (C8) homologue. 

47.(6aR, 1 OaR)-9-(hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7, 10,1 Oa- 

tetrahydrobenzo c]chromen-1-ol, also known as HU-210. 

48.1 -Pentyl-3-(1 -naphthoyl)indole, also known as JWH-01 8. 

49.1 -Butyl-3-(1 -naphthoyl)indole, also known as JWH-073. 

50.1 2-(4-morpholinyl)ethyl]-3-(1 -naphthoyl) indole, also known as JWH-200. 

51 .BZP (Benzylpiperazine). 

52. Fluorophenylpiperazine. 

53 .Methylphenylpiperazine. 

54.Chlorophenylpiperazine. 

55 .Methoxyphenylpiperazine. 

56.DBZP (1 ,4-dibenzylpiperazine). 

57.TFMPP (3-Trifluoromethylphenylpiperazine). 

58.MBDB (Methylbenzodioxolylbutanamine). 



59. 5-Hydroxy-alpha-methyltryptamine. 

60. 5-Hydroxy-N -methyltryptamine. 

61 . 5-Methoxy-N -methyl- N-isopropyltryptamine. 

62. 5-Methoxy-alpha-methyltryptamine. 

63 .Methyltryptamine. 

64. 5-Methoxy-N , N -dimethyltryptamine. 

65.5-Methyl-N, N -dimethyltryptamine. 

66.Tyramine (4-Hydroxyphenethylamine). 

67.5-Methoxy-N , N-Diisopropyltryptamine. 

68.D1PT (N,N-Diisopropyltryptamine). 

69.DPT (N,N-Dipropyltryptamine). 

70.4-Hydroxy-N , N -diisopropyltryptamine. 

71 . N, N -Diallyl-5-Methoxytryptamine. 

72.DOI (4-Iodo-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine). 

73.DOC (4-Chloro-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine). 

74.2C-E (4- Ethyl-2, 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine). 

75 .2C-T-4 (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-isopropylthiophenethylamine). 

76.2C-C (4-Chloro-2, 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine). 

77.2C-T (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-methylthiophenethylamine). 

78.2C-T-2 (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylthiophenethylamine). 

79 .2C-T-7 (2, 5-Dimethoxy-4- (n )-propylthiophenethylamine). 

80.2C-I (4-Iodo-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine). 

81 . Butylone (beta-keto-N-methylbenzodioxolylpropylamine). 

82.Ethcathinone. 

83. Ethylone (3,4-methylenedioxy-N-ethylcathinone). 

84. Naphyrone (naphthylpyrovalerone). 

85. N-N -Dimethyl-3 ,4-methylenedioxycathinone. 

86. N-N -Diethyl-3,4-methylenedioxycathinone. 

87.3,4-methylenedioxy-propiophenone. 

88.2-Bromo-3 ,4-Methylenedioxypropiophenone. 

89. 3,4-methylenedioxy-propiophenone-2-oxime. 

90. N-Acetyl-3 ,4-methylenedioxycathinone. 

91 . N-Acetyl- N -Methyl-3 ,4-Methylenedioxycathinone. 

92. N-Acetyl- N - Ethyl-3,4-Methylenedioxycathinone. 

93. Bromomethcathinone. 

94. Buphedrone (alpha- methylamino-butyrophenone). 



95. EutyLone (beta-Keto-EthytbenzodioxotyLbutanamine). 

96. Dimethylcathinone. 

97. DimethyLmethcathinone. 

98. Pentytone (beta-Keto-MethyLbenzodioxoLyLpentanamine). 

99. (MDPPP) 3 ,4-MethyLenedioxy-aLpha-pyrroLidinopropiophenone. 

100. (MDPBP) 3,4-MethyLenedioxy-aLpha-pyrroLidinobutiophenone. 

101 .Methoxy-alpha-pyrrolidinopropiophenone (MOPPP). 

102 .MethyL-aLpha-pyrroLidinohexiophenone (MPHP). 

103. BenocycLidine (BCP) or benzothiophenytcycLohexylpiperidine (BTCP). 

104. Ftuoromethytaminobutyrophenone (F-MABP). 

105 .MethoxypyrroLidinobutyrophenone (MeO-PBP). 

106. EthyL-pyrroLidinobutyrophenone (Et-PBP). 

107. 3-MethyL-4-Methoxymethcathinone (3-Me-4-MeO-MCAT). 

1 08.MethyLethytaminobutyrophenone (Me-EABP). 

109.MethyLamino-butyrophenone (MABP). 

110.PyrroLidinopropiophenone (PPP). 

111 .PyrroLidinobutiophenone (PBP). 

1 12.PyrroLidinovalerophenone (PVP). 

11 3.MethyL-alpha-pyrrolidinopropiophenone (MPPP). 

1 14.JWH-007 (1 -pentyt-2-methyl-3-(1 -naphthoyL)indoLe). 

11 5.JWH-01 5 (2-Methyl-i -propyl-i H-indol-3-yL)-i -naphthatenytmethanone). 

ii 6.JWH-0i 9 (Naphthaten-i -yl-(i -hexylindoL-3-yl)methanone). 

ii 7.JWH-020 (1 -heptyt-3-(i -naphthoyL)indole). 

ii 8.JWH-072 (Naphthaten-i -yl-(i -propyL-i H-indol-3-yL)methanone). 

ii 9.JWH-081 (4-methoxynaphthalen-i -yl-(i -pentyLindoL-3-yL)methanone). 

1 20.JWH-i 22 (1 -Pentyt-3-(4-methyl-i -naphthoyl)indole). 

121 .JWH-i 33 ((6aR, 1 OaR)-3-(i , 1 -DimethylbutyL)-6a,7, 10,1 Oa-tetrahydro-6,6,9-trimethyl-6H- 

b,d]pyran)). 
1 22.JWH-i 75 (3-(naphthaLen-i -ylmethyL)-i -pentyl-i H-indole). 

123 .JWH-201 (1 -pentyt-3- (4-methoxyphenylacetyL)indole). 

1 24.JWH-203 (2-(2-chtorophenyt)-1 -(1 -pentylindoL-3-yL)ethanone). 

1 25.JWH-21 0 (4-ethytnaphthaLen-i -yl-(i -pentylindol-3-yL)methanone). 

1 26.JWH-250 (2-(2-methoxyphenyL)-i -(1 -pentylindoL-3-yl)ethanone). 

1 27.JWH-251 (2-(2-methyLphenyL)-i -(1 -pentyl-i H-indol-3-yl)ethanone). 

1 28.JWH-302 (1 -pentyL-3- (3-methoxyphenylacetyL)indole). 

1 29.JWH-398 (1 -pentyL-3-(4-chloro-i -naphthoyL)indoLe). 



1 30.HU-21 1 ((6aS,1 OaS)-9-(Hydroxymethyl)-6,6-dimethyl-3-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)-6a,7,1 0,1 Oa- 

c]chromen-1 -01). 

131 .HU-308 (1 2,6-dimethoxy-4-(2-methyloctan-2-yl)phenyl]-7,7-dimethyl-4- 3.1 .1]hept-3-enyl] methanol). 

1 32.HU-331 (1 R,6R)-3-methyl-6-(1 - methylethenyl)-2-cyclohexen-1 -yl]-5-pentyl- 

2,5-cyclohexadiene-1 ,4-dione). 

1 33.CB-1 3 (Naphthalen-1 -yl-(4-pentyloxynaphthalen-1 -yl)methanone). 

1 34.CB-25 (N-cyclopropyl-1 1 -(3-hydroxy-5-pentylphenoxy)-undecanamide). 

1 35.CB-52 (N-cyclopropyl-1 1 -(2-hexyl-5-hydroxyphenoxy)-undecanamide). 

1 36.CP 55,940 (1 R,2R,5R)-5-hydroxy-2-(3-hydroxypropyl)cyclohexyl]-5-(2-methyloctan-2- 

yl)phenol). 

1 37.AM-694 (1 (5-fluoropentyl)-1 H-indol-3-yl]-(2-iodophenyl)methanone). 

1 38.AM-2201 (1 (5-fluoropentyl)-1 H-indol-3-yl]-(naphthalen-1 -yl)methanone). 

1 39.RCS-4 ((4-methoxyphenyl) (1 -pentyl-1 H-indol-3-yl)methanone). 

140.RCS-8 (1 -(1 -(2-cyclohexylethyl)-1 H-indol-3-yl)-2-(2-methoxyphenylethanone). 

141 .W1N55,212-2 ,2,3-de]-1 ,4- 

benzoxazin-6-yl] -1 - naphthalenylmethanone). 

142.W1N55,21 2-3 ,2,3-de]-1 ,4- 

benzoxazin-6-yl] -1 - naphthalenylmethanone). 

(d)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances, including any of 

its salts, isomers, optical isomers, salts of their isomers, and salts of these optical isomers 

whenever the existence of such isomers and salts is possible within the specific chemical 

designation: 

1 .1 ,4-Butanediol. 

2.Gamma-butyrolactone (GBL). 

3.Gamma-hydroxybutyric acid (GHB). 

4 .Methaq ualone. 

5 .Mecloqualone. 

(2)SCHEDULE 11.—A substance in Schedule II has a high potential for abuse and has a currently 

accepted but severely restricted medical use in treatment in the United States, and abuse of the 

substance may lead to severe psychological or physical dependence. The following substances are 

controlled in Schedule II: 

(a)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

substances, whether produced directly or indirectly by extraction from substances of vegetable 

origin or independently by means of chemical synthesis: 





7. Dihydrocodeine. 

8. Diphenoxylate. 

9.Fentanyl. 

10.Isomethadone. 

11 .Levomethorphan. 

1 2.Levorphanol. 

1 3.Metazocine. 

1 4.Methadone. 

15 .Methadone- I ntermediate,4-cyano-2- 

dimethylamino-4,4-diphenylbutane. 

1 6.Moramide- I ntermediate,2-methyl- 

3-morpholoino- 1 , 1 -diphenylpropane-carboxylic acid. 

17. Nabi lone. 

18.Pethidine (meperidine). 

19. Pethidine- I ntermediate-A,4-cyano- 1- 

methyl-4-phenylpiperidine. 

20. Pethidine- I ntermediate-B,ethyl-4- 

phenylpiperidine-4-carboxylate. 

21 . Pethidine- Intermediate-C, 1 -methyl-4- phenylpiperidine-4-carboxylic acid. 

22.Phenazocine. 

23.Phencyclidine. 

24.1 -Phenylcyclohexylamine. 

25.Piminodine. 

26.1 -Piperidinocyclohexanecarbonitrile. 

27. Racemethorphan. 

28.Racemorphan. 

29.Sufentanil. 

(c)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances, including their 

salts, isomers, optical isomers, salts of their isomers, and salts of their optical isomers: 

1 .Amobarbital. 

2.Amphetamine. 

3 .Glutethimide. 

4.Methamphetamine. 

5 .Methylphenidate. 

6. Pentobarbital. 



7. Phenmetrazine. 

8. Phenylacetone. 

9.Secobarbital. 

(3)SCHEDULE 111.—A substance in Schedule III has a potential for abuse less than the substances 

contained in Schedules I and II and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United 

States, and abuse of the substance may lead to moderate or low physical dependence or high 

psychological dependence or, in the case of anabolic steroids, may lead to physical damage. The 

following substances are controlled in Schedule III: 

(a)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having a 

depressant or stimulant effect on the nervous system: 

1 .Any substance which contains any quantity of a derivative of barbituric acid, including 

thiobarbituric acid, or any salt of a derivative of barbituric acid or thiobarbituric acid, including, 

but not limited to, butabarbital and butalbital. 

2.Benzphetamine. 

3.Chlorhexadol. 

4.Chlorphentermine. 

5.Clortermine. 

6.Lysergic acid. 

7.Lysergic acid amide. 

8.Methyprylon. 

9. Phendimetrazine. 

1 O.Sulfondiethylmethane. 

11 .Sulfonethylmethane. 

1 2.Sulfonmethane. 

13.Tiletamine and zolazepam or any salt thereof. 

(b )Nalorphine. 

(c)Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, compound, 

mixture, or preparation containing limited quantities of any of the following controlled substances 

or any salts thereof: 

1 .Not more than 1.8 grams of codeine per 100 milliliters or not more than 90 milligrams per 

dosage unit, with an equal or greater quantity of an isoquinoline alkaloid of opium. 

2.Not more than 1.8 grams of codeine per 100 milliliters or not more than 90 milligrams per 

dosage unit, with recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients which are not 

controlled substances. 

3.Not more than 300 milligrams of hydrocodone per 100 milliliters or not more than 15 



milligrams per dosage unit, with a fourfold or greater quantity of an isoquinoline alkaloid of opium. 

4.Not more than 300 milligrams of hydrocodone per 100 milliliters or not more than 15 

milligrams per dosage unit, with recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients 

that are not controlled substances. 

5.Not more than 1.8 grams of dihydrocodeine per 100 milliliters or not more than 90 

milligrams per dosage unit, with recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients 

which are not controlled substances. 

6.Not more than 300 milligrams of ethylmorphine per 100 milliliters or not more than 15 

milligrams per dosage unit, with one or more active, nonnarcotic ingredients in recognized 

therapeutic amounts. 

7.Not more than 50 milligrams of morphine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams, with 

recognized therapeutic amounts of one or more active ingredients which are not controlled 

substances. 

For purposes of charging a person with a violation of s. 893.135 involving any controlled 

substance described in subparagraph 3. or subparagraph 4., the controlled substance is a Schedule 

III controlled substance pursuant to this paragraph but the weight of the controlled substance per 

milliliters or per dosage unit is not relevant to the charging of a violation of s. 893.135. The weight 

of the controlled substance shall be determined pursuant to s. 893.135(6). 

(d)Anabolic steroids. 

1 .The term "anabolic steroid" means any drug or hormonal substance, chemically and 

pharmacologically related to testosterone, other than estrogens, progestins, and corticosteroids, 

that promotes muscle growth and includes: 

a.Androsterone. 

b.Androsterone acetate. 

c. Boldenone. 

d.Boldenone acetate. 

e. Boldenone benzoate. 

f.Boldenone undecylenate. 

g.Chlorotestosterone (4-chlortestosterone). 

h.Clostebol. 

i. Dehyd rochlormethyltestosterone. 

j . Dihyd rotestosterone (4-dihyd rotestosterone). 

k. Drostanolone. 

I. Ethylestrenol. 

m. Fluoxymesterone. 

n.Formebulone (formebolone). 





through implants to cattle or other nonhuman species and that has been approved by the United 

States Secretary of Health and Human Services for such administration. However, any person who 

prescribes, dispenses, or distributes such a steroid for human use is considered to have prescribed, 

dispensed, or distributed an anabolic steroid within the meaning of this paragraph. 

(e)Ketamine, including any isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters, and 

ethers, whenever the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers, and salts is possible within the 

specific chemical designation. 

(f)Dronabinol (synthetic THC) in sesame oil and encapsulated in a soft gelatin capsule in a drug 

product approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(g)Any drug product containing gamma-hydroxybutyric acid, including its salts, isomers, and 

salts of isomers, for which an application is approved under s. 505 of the Federal Food, Drug, and 

Cosmetic Act. 

(4)SCHEDULE IV.—A substance in Schedule IV has a low potential for abuse relative to the 

substances in Schedule III and has a currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United 

States, and abuse of the substance may lead to limited physical or psychological dependence 

relative to the substances in Schedule III. Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another 

schedule, any material, compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the 

following substances, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers whenever the existence of 

such salts, isomers, and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation, are 

controlled in Schedule IV: 

(a)Alprazolam. 

(b)Barbital. 

(c)Bromazepam. 

(d )Camazepam. 

(e)Cathine. 

(f)Chloral betaine. 

(g)Chloral hydrate. 

(h)Chlordiazepoxide. 

(i)Clobazam. 

(j)Clonazepam. 

(k)Clorazepate. 

(l)Clotiazepam. 

(m )Cloxazolam. 

(n)Delorazepam. 

(o)Propoxyphene (dosage forms). 

(p)Diazepam. 



(q )Diethytpropion. 

(r)Estazolam. 

(s)Ethchlorvynol. 

(t)Ethinamate. 

(u)Ethyl Loflazepate. 

(v)Fencamfamin. 

(w)FenfLuramine. 

(x)Fenproporex. 

(y)Fludiazepam. 

(z)Flurazepam. 

(aa)HaLazepam. 

(bb)HatoxazoLam. 

(cc)Ketazotam. 

(dd)Loprazolam. 

(ee)Lorazepam. 

(ff)Lormetazepam. 

(gg)Mazindot. 

(hh)Mebutamate. 

(ii)Medazepam. 

(jj )Mefenorex. 

(kk)Meprobamate. 

(LL)Methohexitat. 

(mm )Methytphenobarbitat. 

(nn)Midazotam. 

(oo)Nimetazepam. 

(pp)Nitrazepam. 

(qq)Nordiazepam. 

(rr)Oxazepam. 

(ss)OxazoLam. 

(tt)Paratdehyde. 

(uu)Pemotine. 

(vv)Pentazocine. 

(ww ) P he no ba rbita I 

(xx)Phentermine. 

(yy)Pinazepam. 

(zz)PipradroL. 



or proprietary preparation containing 

propylhexedrine, unless otherwise provided by federal law. 

(ccc)Quazepam. 

(ddd )Tetrazepam. (-)-1 dimethylamino-1, 2 

diphenylethane]. 

(fff)Temazepam. 

(ggg)Triazolam. 

(hhh)Not more than 1 milligram of difenoxin and not less than 25 micrograms of atropine 

sulfate per dosage unit. 

(iii)Butorphanol tartrate. 

(jjj )Carisoprodol. 

(5)SCHEDULE V.—A substance, compound, mixture, or preparation of a substance in Schedule 

V has a low potential for abuse relative to the substances in Schedule IV and has a currently 

accepted medical use in treatment in the United States, and abuse of such compound, mixture, or 

preparation may lead to limited physical or psychological dependence relative to the substances in 

Schedule IV. 

(a)Substances controlled in Schedule V include any compound, mixture, or preparation 

containing any of the following limited quantities of controlled substances, which shall include one 

or more active medicinal ingredients which are not controlled substances in sufficient proportion to 

confer upon the compound, mixture, or preparation valuable medicinal qualities other than those 

possessed by the controlled substance alone: 

1.Not more than 200 milligrams of codeine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

2.Not more than 100 milligrams of dihydrocodeine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

3.Not more than 100 milligrams of ethylmorphine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

4.Not more than 2.5 milligrams of diphenoxylate and not less than 25 micrograms of atropine 

sulfate per dosage unit. 

5.Not more than 100 milligrams of opium per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams. 

(b)Narcotic drugs. Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any 

material, compound, mixture, or preparation containing any of the following narcotic drugs and 

their salts: Buprenorphine. 

(c)Stimulants. Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, 

compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances having 

a stimulant effect on the central nervous system, including its salts, isomers, and salts of isomers: 

Pyrovalerone. 



History.—s. 3, ch. 73-331; s. 247, ch. 77-104; s. 1, ch. 77-174; ss. 1, 2, ch. 78-195; s. 2, ch. 79-325; s. 1, ch. 80- 

353; s. 1, ch. 82-16; s. 1, ch. 84-89; s. 2, ch. 85-242; s. 1, ch. 86-147; s. 2, ch. 87-243; s. 1, ch. 87-299; s. 1, ch. 88- 

59; s. 3, ch. 89-281; s. 54, ch. 92-69; s. 1, ch. 93-92; s. 4, ch. 95-415; s. 1, ch. 96-360; ss. 1, 5, ch. 97-1; s. 96, ch. 

97-264; s. 1, ch. 99-186; s. 2, ch. 2000-320; s. 1, ch. 2001-55; s. 5, ch. 2001-57; s. 1, ch. 2002-78; s. 2, ch. 2003-10; 

s. 1, ch. 2008-88; s. 2, ch. 2011-73; s. 1, ch. 2011-90; s. 1, ch. 2012-23. 

Note.—Section 1, ch. 97-1, added paragraph (4)(w) listing fenfluramine. Section 5, ch. 97-1, 

repealed paragraph (4)(w) effective upon the removal of fenfluramine from the schedules of 

controlled substances in 21 C.F.R. s. 1308. The Drug Enforcement Administration of the United 

States Department of Justice filed a proposed final rule removing fenfluramine from the schedules, 

see 62 F.R. 24620, May 6, 1997. 

893.0301 Death resulting from apparent drug overdose; reporting requirements.—If a 

person dies of an apparent drug overdose: 

(1 )A law enforcement agency shall prepare a report identifying each prescribed controlled 

substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV of s. 893.03 which is found on or near 

the deceased or among the deceased's possessions. The report must identify the person who 

prescribed the controlled substance, if known or ascertainable. Thereafter, the law enforcement 

agency shall submit a copy of the report to the medical examiner. 

(2)A medical examiner who is preparing a report pursuant to s. 406.11 shall include in the 

report information identifying each prescribed controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule 

III, or Schedule IV of s. 893.03 that was found in, on, or near the deceased or among the 

deceased's possessions. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 2007-156. 

893.031 Industrial exceptions to controlled substance scheduling.— 

(1 )For the purpose of this section, the following meanings of terms shall apply: 

(a)"Manufacture" means any process or operation necessary for manufacturing a product. 

(b)"Distribution" means any process or operation necessary for distributing a product, 

including, but not limited to, wholesaling, delivery or transport, and storage. 

(c)"Manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol" means a person who is involved in the manufacture of 

1 ,4-Butanediol for use in the manufacture of an industrial product and who provides that 

manufactured 1 ,4-Butanediol to a distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol or a manufacturer of an industrial 

product. 

(d)"Distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol" means a person who is involved in the distribution of 1,4- 

Butanediol. 

(e)"Manufacturer of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL)" means a person who: 

1.Is involved in the manufacture of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) for use in the manufacture of 

an industrial product and who provides that manufactured gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) to a 



distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a manufacturer of an industrial product; and 

2.Is in compliance with any requirements to register with the United States Drug Enforcement 

Administration as a List I Chemical registrant. 

(f)"Distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL)" means a person who: 

1 .Is involved in the distribution of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL); and 

2.Is in compliance with any requirements to register with the United States Drug Enforcement 

Administration as a List I Chemical registrant. 

(g)"Manufacturer of an industrial product" means a person who is involved in the manufacture 

of an industrial product in which that person acquires: 

1 .1 ,4-Butanediol from a manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol or a distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol and 

who possesses that substance for use in the manufacture of an industrial product; or 

2.Gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) from a manufacturer of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a 

distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) and who possesses that substance for use in the 

manufacture of an industrial product. 

(h)"Distributor of an industrial product" means a person who is involved in the distribution of 

an industrial product. 

(i)"Industrial product" means a nondrug, noncontrolled finished product that is not for human 

consumption. 

(j)"Finished product" means a product: 

1 .That does not contain either 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL); or 

2.From which neither 1 ,4-Butanediol nor gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) can be readily extracted 

or readily synthesized and which is not sold for human consumption. 

(2)1 ,4-Butanediol is excepted from scheduling pursuant to s. 893.03(1 )(d)1. when that 

substance is in the possession of: 

(a)A manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol or a distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol; 

(b)A manufacturer of an industrial product or a distributor of an industrial product; or 

(c)A person possessing a finished product. 

(3)Gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) is excepted from scheduling pursuant to s. 893.03(1 )(d)2. 

when that substance is in the possession of: 

(a)A manufacturer of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a distributor of gamma-butyrolactone 

(GBL); 

(b)A manufacturer of an industrial product or a distributor of an industrial product; or 

(c)A person possessing a finished product. 

(4)This section does not apply to: 

(a)A manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol or a distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol who sells, delivers, or 

otherwise distributes that substance to a person who is not a distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol or a 



manufacturer of an industrial product; 

(b)A manufacturer of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a distributor of gamma-butyrolactone 

(GBL) who sells, delivers, or otherwise distributes that substance to a person who is not a 

distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) or a manufacturer of an industrial product; 

(c)A person who possesses 1 ,4-Butanediol but who is not a manufacturer of 1 ,4-Butanediol, a 

distributor of 1 ,4-Butanediol, a manufacturer of an industrial product, a distributor of an industrial 

product, or a person possessing a finished product as described in paragraph (2)(c) or paragraph 

(3)(c); 

(d)A person who possesses gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) but who is not a manufacturer of 

gamma-butyrolactone (GBL), a distributor of gamma-butyrolactone (GBL), a manufacturer of an 

industrial product, a distributor of an industrial product, or a person possessing a finished product 

as described in paragraph (2)(c) or paragraph (3)(c); 

(e)A person who extracts or synthesizes either 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) 

from a finished product as described in subparagraph(1)(j)2. or a person who extracts or 

synthesizes 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) from any product or material, unless 

such extraction or synthesis is authorized by law; or 

(f)A person whose possession of either 1 ,4-Butanediol or gamma-butyrolactone (GBL) is not in 

compliance with the requirements of this section or whose possession of either of those substances 

is not specifically authorized by law. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2003-10. 

893.O33Listed chemicals.—The chemicals listed in this section are included by whatever 

official, common, usual, chemical, or trade name designated. 

(1)PRECURSOR CHEMICALS.—The term "listed precursor chemical" means a chemical that may 

be used in manufacturing a controlled substance in violation of this chapter and is critical to the 

creation of the controlled substance, and such term includes any salt, optical isomer, or salt of an 

optical isomer, whenever the existence of such salt, optical isomer, or salt of optical isomer is 

possible within the specific chemical designation. The following are "listed precursor chemicals": 

(a)Anthranilic acid. 

(b)Benzaldehyde. 

(c)Benzyl cyanide. 

(d)Chloroephedrine. 

(e)Chloropseudoephedrine. 

(f) Ephed ri ne. 

(g)Ergonovine. 

(h)Ergotamine. 

(i)Hydriodic acid. 



(j )Ethylamine. 

(k)Isosaf role. 

(l)Methylamine. 

(m )3, 4-Methylenedioxyphenyl-2-propanone. 

(n)N-acetylanthranilic acid. 

(o)N-ethylephedrine. 

(p)N-ethylpseudoephedri ne. 

(q)N-methylephedrine. 

(r)N-methylpseudoephedrine. 

(s) Nitroethane. 

(t)Norpseudoephedrine. 

(u)Phenylacetic acid. 

(v) Phenylpropanolamine. 

(w)Piperidine. 

(x)Piperonal. 

(y)Propionic anhydride. 

(z)Pseudoephedrine. 

(aa)Safrole. 

(2)ESSENTIAL CHEMICALS.—The term "listed essential chemical" means a chemical that may be 

used as a solvent, reagent, or catalyst in manufacturing a controlled substance in violation of this 

chapter. The following are "listed essential chemicals": 

(a)Acetic anhydride. 

(b)Acetone. 

(c)Anhydrous ammonia. 

(d)Benzyl chloride. 

(e)2-Butanone. 

(f)Ethyl ether. 

(g)Hydrochloric gas. 

(h)Hydriodic acid. 

(i)Iodine. 

(j)Potassium permanganate. 

(k)Toluene. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 91 -279; s. 6, ch. 2001-57; s. 2, ch. 2003-15; s. 1, ch. 2005-128. 

893.O35Control of new substances; findings of fact; delegation of authority to Attorney 

General to control substances by rule.— 

(1 )(a)New substances are being created which are not controlled under the provisions of this 



chapter but which have a potential for abuse similar to or greater than that for substances 

controlled under this chapter. These new substances are sometimes called "designer drugs" 

because they can be designed to produce a desired pharmacological effect and to evade the 

controlling statutory provisions. Designer drugs are being manufactured, distributed, possessed, 

and used as substitutes for controlled substances. 

(b)The hazards attributable to the traffic in and use of these designer drugs are increased 

because their unregulated manufacture produces variations in purity and concentration. 

(c)Many such new substances are untested, and it cannot be immediately determined whether 

they have useful medical or chemical purposes. 

(d)The uncontrolled importation, manufacture, distribution, possession, or use of these 

designer drugs has a substantial and detrimental impact on the health and safety of the people of 

Florida. 

(e)These designer drugs can be created more rapidly than they can be identified and 

controlled by action of the Legislature. There is a need for a speedy and expert administrative 

determination of their proper classification under this chapter. It is therefore necessary to 

delegate to an administrative agency restricted authority to identify and classify new substances 

that have a potential for abuse, so that they can be controlled in the same manner as other 

substances currently controlled under this chapter. 

(2)The Attorney General shall apply the provisions of this section to any substance not 

currently controlled under the provisions of s. 893.03. The Attorney General may by rule: 

(a)Add a substance to a schedule established by s. 893.03, or transfer a substance between 

schedules, if he or she finds that it has a potential for abuse and he or she makes with respect to it 

the other findings appropriate for classification in the particular schedule under s. 893.03 in which 

it is to be placed. 

(b)Remove a substance previously added to a schedule if he or she finds the substance does 

not meet the requirements for inclusion in that schedule. 

Rules adopted under this section shall be made pursuant to the rulemaking procedures 

prescribed by chapter 120. 

(3)(a)The term "potential for abuse" in this section means that a substance has properties as a 

central nervous system stimulant or depressant or a hallucinogen that create a substantial 

likelihood of its being: 

1 .Used in amounts that create a hazard to the user's health or the safety of the community; 

2.Diverted from legal channels and distributed through illegal channels; or 

3.Taken on the user's own initiative rather than on the basis of professional medical advice. 

Proof of potential for abuse can be based upon a showing that these activities are already taking 

place, or upon a showing that the nature and properties of the substance make it reasonable to 



assume that there is a substantial likelihood that such activities will take place, in other than 

isolated or occasional instances. 

(b)The terms "immediate precursor" and "narcotic drug" shall be given the same meanings as 

provided by s. 102 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. 

s. 802, as amended and in effect on April 1, 1985. 

(4)In making any findings under this section, the Attorney General shall consider the following 

factors with respect to each substance proposed to be controlled or removed from control: 

(a)Its actual or relative potential for abuse. 

(b)Scientific evidence of its pharmacological effect, if known. 

(c)The state of current scientific knowledge regarding the drug or other substance. 

(d)Its history and current pattern of abuse. 

(e)The scope, duration, and significance of abuse. 

(f)What, if any, risk there is to the public health. 

(g)Its psychic or physiological dependence liability. 

(h)Whether the substance is an immediate precursor of a substance already controlled under 

this chapter. 

The findings and conclusions of the United States Attorney General or his or her delegee, as set 

forth in the Federal Register, with respect to any substance pursuant to s. 201 of the 

Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended and 

in effect on April 1, 1985, shall be admissible as evidence in any rulemaking proceeding under this 

section, including an emergency rulemaking proceeding under subsection (7). 

(5)Before initiating proceedings under subsection (2), the Attorney General shall request from 

the Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement a medical and scientific 

evaluation of the substance under consideration and a recommendation as to the appropriate 

classification, if any, of such substance as a controlled substance. In responding to this request, the 

Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement shall consider the factors listed in 

subsection (4). The Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement shall respond to 

this request promptly and in writing; however, their response is not subject to chapter 120. If both 

the Department of Health and the Department of Law Enforcement recommend that a substance 

not be controlled, the Attorney General shall not control that substance. If the Attorney General 

determines, based on the evaluations and recommendations of the Department of Health and the 

Department of Law Enforcement and all other available evidence, that there is substantial 

evidence of potential for abuse, he or she shall initiate proceedings under paragraph (2)(a) with 

respect to that substance. 

(6)(a)The Attorney General shall by rule exempt any nonnarcotic substance controlled by rule 

under this section from the application of this section if such substance may, under the Federal 



Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, be lawfully sold over the counter without a prescription. 

(b)The Attorney General may by rule exempt any compound, mixture, or preparation 

containing a substance controlled by rule under this section from the application of this section if 

he or she finds that such compound, mixture, or preparation meets the requirements of either of 

the following subcategories: 

1 .A mixture or preparation containing a nonnarcotic substance controlled by rule, which 

mixture or preparation is approved for prescription use and which contains one or more other 

active ingredients which are not listed in any schedule and which are included therein in such 

combinations, quantity, proportion, or concentration as to vitiate the potential for abuse. 

2.A compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any substance controlled by rule, 

which is not for administration to a human being or animal, and which is packaged in such form or 

concentration, or with adulterants or denaturants, so that as packaged it does not present any 

significant potential for abuse. 

(7)(a)If the Attorney General finds that the scheduling of a substance in Schedule I of s. 893.03 

on a temporary basis is necessary to avoid an imminent hazard to the public safety, he or she may 

by rule and without regard to the requirements of subsection (5) relating to the Department of 

Health and the Department of Law Enforcement schedule such substance in Schedule I if the 

substance is not listed in any other schedule of s. 893.03. The Attorney General shall be required to 

consider, with respect to his or her finding of imminent hazard to the public safety, only those 

factors set forth in paragraphs (3)(a) and (4)(d), (e), and (f), including actual abuse, diversion from 

legitimate channels, and clandestine importation, manufacture, or distribution. 

(b)The Attorney General may use emergency rulemaking provisions under s. 120.54(4) in 

scheduling substances under this subsection. Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 120.54(4)(c), any 

rule adopted under this subsection shall not expire except as provided in subsection (9). 

(8)(a)Upon the effective date of a rule adopted pursuant to this section adding or transferring 

a substance to a schedule under s. 893.03, such substance shall be deemed included in that 

schedule, and all provisions of this chapter applicable to substances in that schedule shall be 

deemed applicable to such substance. 

(b)A rule adopted pursuant to this section shall continue in effect until it is repealed; until it 

is declared invalid in proceedings under s. 120.56 or in proceedings before a court of competent 

jurisdiction; or until it expires under the provisions of subsection (9). 

(9)The Attorney General shall report to the Legislature by March 1 of each year concerning the 

rules adopted under this section during the previous year. Each rule so reported shall expire on the 

following June 30 unless the Legislature adopts the provisions thereof as an amendment to this 

chapter. 

(10)The repeal, expiration, or determination of invalidity of any rule shall not operate to 



create any claim or cause of action against any law enforcement officer or other enforcing 

authority for actions taken in good faith in reliance on the validity of the rule. 

(11 )In construing this section, due consideration and great weight should be given to 

interpretations of the United States Attorney General and the federal courts relating to s. 201 of 

the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended 

and in effect on April 1, 1985. All substantive rules adopted under this part shall not be 

inconsistent with the rules of the United States Attorney General and the decisions of the federal 

courts interpreting the provisions of s. 201 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and 

Control Act of 1970,21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended and in effect on April 1, 1985. 

(12)The adoption of a rule transferring a substance from one schedule to another or removing 

a substance from a schedule pursuant to this section shall not affect prosecution or punishment for 

any crime previously committed with respect to that substance. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 85-242; s. 72, ch. 87-226; s. 255, ch. 94-218; s. 318, ch. 96-410; s. 1826, ch. 97-102; s. 16, ch. 

99-186. 

893.O355Control of scheduled substances; delegation of authority to Attorney General to 

reschedule substance, or delete substance, by rule.— 

(1 )The Legislature has determined that, from time to time, additional testings, approvals, or 

scientific evidence may indicate that controlled substances listed in Schedules I, II, III, IV, and V 

hereof have a greater potential for beneficial medical use in treatment in the United States than 

was evident when such substances were initially scheduled. It is the intent of the Legislature to 

quickly provide a method for an immediate change to the scheduling and control of such 

substances to allow for the beneficial medical use thereof so that more flexibility will be available 

than is possible through rescheduling legislatively. 

(2)The Attorney General is hereby delegated the authority to adopt rules rescheduling 

specified substances to a less controlled schedule, or deleting specified substances from a 

schedule, upon a finding that reduced control of such substances is in the public interest. In 

determining whether reduced control of a substance is in the public interest, the Attorney General 

shall consider the following: 

(a)Whether the substance has been rescheduled or deleted from any schedule by rule adopted 

by the United States Attorney General pursuant to s. 201 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse 

Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811. 

(b)The substance's actual or relative potential for abuse. 

(c)Scientific evidence of the substance's pharmacological effect, if known. 

(d)The state of current scientific knowledge regarding the substance. 

(e)The substance's history and current pattern of abuse. 

(f)The scope, duration, and significance of abuse. 



(g)What, if any, risk there is to the public health. 

(h)The substance's psychic or physiological dependence liability. 

(3)In making the public interest determination, the Attorney General shall give great weight to 

the scheduling rules adopted by the United States Attorney General subsequent to such substances 

being listed in Schedules I, II, III, IV, and V hereof, to achieve the original legislative purpose of the 

Florida Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of maintaining uniformity between 

the laws of Florida and the laws of the United States with respect to controlled substances. 

(4)Rulemaking under this section shall be in accordance with the procedural requirements of 

chapter 120, including the emergency rule provisions found in s. 120.54. The Attorney General may 

initiate proceedings for adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule on his or her own motion or 

upon the petition of any interested party. 

(5)Upon the effective date of a rule adopted pursuant to this section, the rule's rescheduling 

or deletion of a substance shall be effective for all purposes under this chapter. 

(6)Rules adopted pursuant to this section shall be reviewed each year by the Legislature. Each 

rule shall remain in effect until the effective date of legislation that provides for a different 

scheduling of a substance than that set forth in such rule. 

(7)The adoption of a rule rescheduling a substance or deleting a substance from control 

pursuant to this section shall not affect prosecution or punishment for any crime previously 

committed with respect to that substance. 

(8)The provisions of this section apply only to substances controlled expressly by statute and 

not to substances controlled by rules adopted under the authority granted in the provisions of s. 

893.035. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 85-242; s. 1435, ch. 97-102. 

893.O356Control of new substances; findings of fact; "controlled substance analog" 

defined.— 

(1 )(a)New substances are being created which are not controlled under the provisions of this 

chapter but which have a potential for abuse similar to or greater than that for substances 

controlled under this chapter. These new substances are called "controlled substance analogs," 

and can be designed to produce a desired pharmacological effect and to evade the controlling 

statutory provisions. Controlled substance analogs are being manufactured, distributed, possessed, 

and used as substitutes for controlled substances. 

(b)The hazards attributable to the traffic in and use of controlled substance analogs are 

increased because their unregulated manufacture produces variations in purity and concentration. 

(c)Many such new substances are untested, and it cannot be immediately determined whether 

they have useful medical or chemical purposes. 

(d)The uncontrolled importation, manufacture, distribution, possession, or use of controlled 



substance analogs has a substantial and detrimental impact on the health and safety of the people 

of Florida. 

(e)Controlled substance analogs can be created more rapidly than they can be identified and 

controlled by action of the Legislature. There is a need for a speedy determination of their proper 

classification under this chapter. It is therefore necessary to identify and classify new substances 

that have a potential for abuse, so that they can be controlled in the same manner as other 

substances currently controlled under this chapter. 

(2)(a)As used in this section, "controlled substance analog" means a substance which, due to 

its chemical structure and potential for abuse, meets the following criteria: 

1 .Is substantially similar to that of a controlled substance listed in Schedule I or Schedule II of 

s. 893.03; and 

2.Has a stimulant, depressant, or hallucinogenic effect on the central nervous system or is 

represented or intended to have a stimulant, depressant, or hallucinogenic effect on the central 

nervous system substantially similar to or greater than that of a controlled substance listed in 

Schedule I or Schedule II of s. 893.03. 

(b)"Controlled substance analog" does not include: 

1 .A controlled substance; 

2.Any substance for which there is an approved new drug application; 

3.Any compound, mixture, or preparation which contains any controlled substance which is 

not for administration to a human being or animal, and which is packaged in such form or 

concentration, or with adulterants or denaturants, so that as packaged it does not present any 

significant potential for abuse; or 

4.Any substance to which an investigational exemption applies under s. 505 of the Food, Drug, 

and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. 355, but only to the extent that conduct with respect to the substance 

is pursuant to such exemption. 

(3)The term "potential for abuse" in this section means that a substance has properties as a 

central nervous system stimulant or depressant or a hallucinogen that create a substantial 

likelihood of its being: 

(a)Used in amounts that create a hazard to the user's health or the safety of the community; 

(b)Diverted from legal channels and distributed through illegal channels; or 

(c)Taken on the user's own initiative rather than on the basis of professional medical advice. 

Proof of potential for abuse can be based upon a showing that these activities are already taking 

place, or upon a showing that the nature and properties of the substance make it reasonable to 

assume that there is a substantial likelihood that such activities will take place, in other than 

isolated or occasional instances. 

(4)The following factors shall be relevant to a finding that a substance is a controlled 



substance analog within the purview of this section: 

(a)Its actual or relative potential for abuse. 

(b)Scientific evidence of its pharmacological effect, if known. 

(c)The state of current scientific knowledge regarding the substance. 

(d)Its history and current pattern of abuse. 

(e)The scope, duration, and significance of abuse. 

(f)What, if any, risk there is to the public health. 

(g)Its psychic or physiological dependence liability. 

(h)Its diversion from legitimate channels, and clandestine importation, manufacture, or 

distribution. 

(i)Whether the substance is an immediate precursor of a substance already controlled under 

this chapter. 

(5)A controlled substance analog shall, for purposes of drug abuse prevention and control, be 

treated as a controlled substance in Schedule I of s. 893.03. 

(6)In construing this section, due consideration and great weight should be given to 

interpretations of the United States Attorney General and the federal courts relating to s. 201 of 

the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended 

and in effect on April 1, 1985. New substances controlled under this section shall not be treated in 

a manner inconsistent with the rules of the United States Attorney General and the decisions of the 

federal courts interpreting the provisions of s. 201 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention 

and Control Act of 1970,21 U.S.C. s. 811, as amended and in effect on April 1, 1985. 

(7)The treatment of a new substance as a controlled substance pursuant to this section shall 

not affect prosecution or punishment for any crime previously committed with respect to that 

substance. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 87-243; s. 11, ch. 99-186; s. 20, ch. 2000-320. 

893.O4Pharmacist and practitioner.— 

(1 )A pharmacist, in good faith and in the course of professional practice only, may dispense 

controlled substances upon a written or oral prescription of a practitioner, under the following 

conditions: 

(a)Oral prescriptions must be promptly reduced to writing by the pharmacist or recorded 

electronically if permitted by federal law. 

(b)The written prescription must be dated and signed by the prescribing practitioner on the 

day when issued. 

(c)There shall appear on the face of the prescription or written record thereof for the 

controlled substance the following information: 

1 .The full name and address of the person for whom, or the owner of the animal for which, 



the controlled substance is dispensed. 

2.The full name and address of the prescribing practitioner and the practitioner's federal 

controlled substance registry number shall be printed thereon. 

3.If the prescription is for an animal, the species of animal for which the controlled substance 

is prescribed. 

4.The name of the controlled substance prescribed and the strength, quantity, and directions 

for use thereof. 

5.The number of the prescription, as recorded in the prescription files of the pharmacy in 

which it is filled. 

6.The initials of the pharmacist filling the prescription and the date filled. 

(d)The prescription shall be retained on file by the proprietor of the pharmacy in which it is 

filled for a period of 2 years. 

(e)Affixed to the original container in which a controlled substance is delivered upon a 

prescription or authorized refill thereof, as hereinafter provided, there shall be a label bearing the 

following information: 

1 .The name and address of the pharmacy from which such controlled substance was 

dispensed. 

2.The date on which the prescription for such controlled substance was filled. 

3.The number of such prescription, as recorded in the prescription files of the pharmacy in 

which it is filled. 

4.The name of the prescribing practitioner. 

5.The name of the patient for whom, or of the owner and species of the animal for which, the 

controlled substance is prescribed. 

6.The directions for the use of the controlled substance prescribed in the prescription. 

7.A clear, concise warning that it is a crime to transfer the controlled substance to any person 

other than the patient for whom prescribed. 

(f)A prescription for a controlled substance listed in Schedule II may be dispensed only upon a 

written prescription of a practitioner, except that in an emergency situation, as defined by 

regulation of the Department of Health, such controlled substance may be dispensed upon oral 

prescription but is limited to a 72-hour supply. A prescription for a controlled substance listed in 

Schedule II may not be refilled. 

(g)A prescription for a controlled substance listed in Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V 

may not be filled or refilled more than five times within a period of 6 months after the date on 

which the prescription was written unless the prescription is renewed by a practitioner. 

(2)(a)A pharmacist may not dispense a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, 

or Schedule IV to any patient or patient's agent without first determining, in the exercise of her or 



his professional judgment, that the order is valid. The pharmacist may dispense the controlled 

substance, in the exercise of her or his professional judgment, when the pharmacist or 

pharmacist's agent has obtained satisfactory patient information from the patient or the patient's 

agent. 

(b)Any pharmacist who dispenses by mail a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule 

III, or Schedule IV is exempt from the requirement to obtain suitable identification for the 

prescription dispensed by mail if the pharmacist has obtained the patient's identification through 

the patient's prescription benefit plan. 

(c)Any controlled substance listed in Schedule III or Schedule IV may be dispensed by a 

pharmacist upon an oral prescription if, before filling the prescription, the pharmacist reduces it to 

writing or records the prescription electronically if permitted by federal law. Such prescriptions 

must contain the date of the oral authorization. 

(d)Each written prescription prescribed by a practitioner in this state for a controlled 

substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV must include both a written and a 

numerical notation of the quantity of the controlled substance prescribed on the face of the 

prescription and a notation of the date, with the abbreviated month written out on the face of the 

prescription. A pharmacist may, upon verification by the prescriber, document any information 

required by this paragraph. If the prescriber is not available to verify a prescription, the 

pharmacist may dispense the controlled substance but may insist that the person to whom the 

controlled substance is dispensed provide valid photographic identification. If a prescription 

includes a numerical notation of the quantity of the controlled substance or date, but does not 

include the quantity or date written out in textual format, the pharmacist may dispense the 

controlled substance without verification by the prescriber of the quantity or date if the pharmacy 

previously dispensed another prescription for the person to whom the prescription was written. 

(e)A pharmacist may not dispense more than a 30-day supply of a controlled substance listed 

in Schedule III upon an oral prescription issued in this state. 

(f)A pharmacist may not knowingly fill a prescription that has been forged for a controlled 

substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule Ill, or Schedule IV. 

(3)Notwithstanding subsection (1), a pharmacist may dispense a one-time emergency refill of 

up to a 72-hour supply of the prescribed medication for any medicinal drug other than a medicinal 

drug listed in Schedule II, in compliance with the provisions of s. 465.0275. 

(4)The legal owner of any stock of controlled substances in a pharmacy, upon discontinuance 

of dealing in controlled substances, may sell said stock to a manufacturer, wholesaler, or 

pharmacy. Such controlled substances may be sold only upon an order form, when such an order 

form is required for sale by the drug abuse laws of the United States or this state, or regulations 

pursuant thereto. 



History.—s. 4, ch. 73-331; s. 2, ch. 75-18; s. 12, ch. 79-12; s. 2, ch. 90-2; s. 1436, ch. 97-102; s. 301, ch. 99-8; s. 

2, ch. 2007-156; s. 5, ch. 2009-202. 

893.O5Practitioners and persons administering controlled substances in their absence.— 

(1)A practitioner, in good faith and in the course of his or her professional practice only, may 

prescribe, administer, dispense, mix, or otherwise prepare a controlled substance, or the 

practitioner may cause the same to be administered by a licensed nurse or an intern practitioner 

under his or her direction and supervision only. A veterinarian may so prescribe, administer, 

dispense, mix, or prepare a controlled substance for use on animals only, and may cause it to be 

administered by an assistant or orderly under the veterinarian's direction and supervision only. 

(2)When any controlled substance is dispensed by a practitioner, there shall be affixed to the 

original container in which the controlled substance is delivered a label on which appears: 

(a)The date of delivery. 

(b)The directions for use of such controlled substance. 

(c)The name and address of such practitioner. 

(d)The name of the patient and, if such controlled substance is prescribed for an animal, a 

statement describing the species of the animal. 

(e)A clear, concise warning that it is a crime to transfer the controlled substance to any 

person other than the patient for whom prescribed. 

(3)Any person who obtains from a practitioner or the practitioner's agent, or pursuant to 

prescription, any controlled substance for administration to a patient during the absence of such 

practitioner shall return to such practitioner any unused portion of such controlled substance when 

it is no longer required by the patient. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 73-331; s. 1437, ch. 97-102. 

893 .O55Prescription drug monitoring program.— 

(1 )As used in this section, the term: 

(a)"Patient advisory report" or "advisory report" means information provided by the 

department in writing, or as determined by the department, to a prescriber, dispenser, pharmacy, 

or patient concerning the dispensing of controlled substances. All advisory reports are for 

informational purposes only and impose no obligations of any nature or any legal duty on a 

prescriber, dispenser, pharmacy, or patient. The patient advisory report shall be provided in 

accordance with s. 893.13(7)(a)8. The advisory reports issued by the department are not subject to 

discovery or introduction into evidence in any civil or administrative action against a prescriber, 

dispenser, pharmacy, or patient arising out of matters that are the subject of the report; and a 

person who participates in preparing, reviewing, issuing, or any other activity related to an 

advisory report may not be permitted or required to testify in any such civil action as to any 

findings, recommendations, evaluations, opinions, or other actions taken in connection with 



preparing, reviewing, or issuing such a report. 

(b)"Controlled substance" means a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, or 

Schedule IV in s. 893.03. 

(c)"Dispenser" means a pharmacy, dispensing pharmacist, or dispensing health care 

practitioner. 

(d)"Health care practitioner" or "practitioner" means any practitioner who is subject to 

licensure or regulation by the department under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, chapter 

462, chapter 464, chapter 465, or chapter 466. 

(e)"Health care regulatory board" means any board for a practitioner or health care 

practitioner who is licensed or regulated by the department. 

(f)"Pharmacy" means any pharmacy that is subject to licensure or regulation by the 

department under chapter 465 and that dispenses or delivers a controlled substance to an 

individual or address in this state. 

(g)"Prescriber" means a prescribing physician, prescribing practitioner, or other prescribing 

health care practitioner. 

(h)"Active investigation" means an investigation that is being conducted with a reasonable, 

good faith belief that it could lead to the filing of administrative, civil, or criminal proceedings, or 

that is ongoing and continuing and for which there is a reasonable, good faith anticipation of 

securing an arrest or prosecution in the foreseeable future. 

(i)"Law enforcement agency" means the Department of Law Enforcement, a Florida sheriff's 

department, a Florida police department, or a law enforcement agency of the Federal Government 

which enforces the laws of this state or the United States relating to controlled substances, and 

which its agents and officers are empowered by law to conduct criminal investigations and make 

arrests. 

(j)"Program manager" means an employee of or a person contracted by the Department of 

Health who is designated to ensure the integrity of the prescription drug monitoring program in 

accordance with the requirements established in paragraphs (2)(a) and (b). 

(2)(a)The department shall design and establish a comprehensive electronic database system 

that has controlled substance prescriptions provided to it and that provides prescription 

information to a patient's health care practitioner and pharmacist who inform the department that 

they wish the patient advisory report provided to them. Otherwise, the patient advisory report will 

not be sent to the practitioner, pharmacy, or pharmacist. The system shall be designed to provide 

information regarding dispensed prescriptions of controlled substances and shall not infringe upon 

the legitimate prescribing or dispensing of a controlled substance by a prescriber or dispenser 

acting in good faith and in the course of professional practice. The system shall be consistent with 

standards of the American Society for Automation in Pharmacy (ASAP). The electronic system shall 



also comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as it pertains to 

protected health information (PHI), electronic protected health information (EPHI), and all other 

relevant state and federal privacy and security laws and regulations. The department shall 

establish policies and procedures as appropriate regarding the reporting, accessing the database, 

evaluation, management, development, implementation, operation, storage, and security of 

information within the system. The reporting of prescribed controlled substances shall include a 

dispensing transaction with a dispenser pursuant to chapter 465 or through a dispensing transaction 

to an individual or address in this state with a pharmacy that is not located in this state but that is 

otherwise subject to the jurisdiction of this state as to that dispensing transaction. The reporting 

of patient advisory reports refers only to reports to patients, pharmacies, and practitioners. 

Separate reports that contain patient prescription history information and that are not patient 

advisory reports are provided to persons and entities as authorized in paragraphs (7)(b) and (c) and 

s. 893.0551. 

(b)The department, when the direct support organization receives at least $20,000 in nonstate 

moneys or the state receives at least $20,000 in federal grants for the prescription drug monitoring 

program, shall adopt rules as necessary concerning the reporting, accessing the database, 

evaluation, management, development, implementation, operation, security, and storage of 

information within the system, including rules for when patient advisory reports are provided to 

pharmacies and prescribers. The patient advisory report shall be provided in accordance with s. 

893.13(7)(a)8. The department shall work with the professional health care licensure boards, such 

as the Board of Medicine, the Board of Osteopathic Medicine, and the Board of Pharmacy; other 

appropriate organizations, such as the Florida Pharmacy Association, the Florida Medical 

Association, the Florida Retail Federation, and the Florida Osteopathic Medical Association, 

including those relating to pain management; and the Attorney General, the Department of Law 

Enforcement, and the Agency for Health Care Administration to develop rules appropriate for the 

prescription drug monitoring program. 

(c)All dispensers and prescribers subject to these reporting requirements shall be notified by 

the department of the implementation date for such reporting requirements. 

(d)The program manager shall work with professional health care licensure boards and the 

stakeholders listed in paragraph (b) to develop rules appropriate for identifying indicators of 

controlled substance abuse. 

(3)The pharmacy dispensing the controlled substance and each prescriber who directly 

dispenses a controlled substance shall submit to the electronic system, by a procedure and in a 

format established by the department and consistent with an ASAP-approved format, the following 

information for inclusion in the database: 

(a)The name of the prescribing practitioner, the practitioner's federal Drug Enforcement 



Administration registration number, the practitioner's National Provider Identification (NPI) or 

other appropriate identifier, and the date of the prescription. 

(b)The date the prescription was filled and the method of payment, such as cash by an 

individual, insurance coverage through a third party, or Medicaid payment. This paragraph does not 

authorize the department to include individual credit card numbers or other account numbers in 

the database. 

(c)The full name, address, and date of birth of the person for whom the prescription was 

written. 

(d)The name, national drug code, quantity, and strength of the controlled substance 

dispensed. 

(e)The full name, federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number, and address 

of the pharmacy or other location from which the controlled substance was dispensed. If the 

controlled substance was dispensed by a practitioner other than a pharmacist, the practitioner's 

full name, federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number, and address. 

(f)The name of the pharmacy or practitioner, other than a pharmacist, dispensing the 

controlled substance and the practitioner's National Provider Identification (NPI). 

(g)Other appropriate identifying information as determined by department rule. 

(4)Each time a controlled substance is dispensed to an individual, the controlled substance 

shall be reported to the department through the system as soon thereafter as possible, but not 

more than 7 days after the date the controlled substance is dispensed unless an extension is 

approved by the department for cause as determined by rule. A dispenser must meet the reporting 

requirements of this section by providing the required information concerning each controlled 

substance that it dispensed in a department-approved, secure methodology and format. Such 

approved formats may include, but are not limited to, submission via the Internet, on a disc, or by 

use of regular mail. 

(5)When the following acts of dispensing or administering occur, the following are exempt 

from reporting under this section for that specific act of dispensing or administration: 

(a)A health care practitioner when administering a controlled substance directly to a patient if 

the amount of the controlled substance is adequate to treat the patient during that particular 

treatment session. 

(b)A pharmacist or health care practitioner when administering a controlled substance to a 

patient or resident receiving care as a patient at a hospital, nursing home, ambulatory surgical 

center, hospice, or intermediate care facility for the developmentally disabled which is licensed in 

this state. 

(c)A practitioner when administering or dispensing a controlled substance in the health care 

system of the Department of Corrections. 



(d)A practitioner when administering a controlled substance in the emergency room of a 

licensed hospital. 

(e)A health care practitioner when administering or dispensing a controlled substance to a 

person under the age of 16. 

(f)A pharmacist or a dispensing practitioner when dispensing a one-time, 72-hour emergency 

resupply of a controlled substance to a patient. 

(6)The department may establish when to suspend and when to resume reporting information 

during a state-declared or nationally declared disaster. 

(7)(a)A practitioner or pharmacist who dispenses a controlled substance must submit the 

information required by this section in an electronic or other method in an ASAP format approved 

by rule of the department unless otherwise provided in this section. The cost to the dispenser in 

submitting the information required by this section may not be material or extraordinary. Costs not 

considered to be material or extraordinary include, but are not limited to, regular postage, 

electronic media, regular electronic mail, and facsimile charges. 

(b)A pharmacy, prescriber, or dispenser shall have access to information in the prescription 

drug monitoring program's database which relates to a patient of that pharmacy, prescriber, or 

dispenser in a manner established by the department as needed for the purpose of reviewing the 

patient's controlled substance prescription history. Other access to the program's database shall 

be limited to the program's manager and to the designated program and support staff, who may 

act only at the direction of the program manager or, in the absence of the program manager, as 

authorized. Access by the program manager or such designated staff is for prescription drug 

program management only or for management of the program's database and its system in support 

of the requirements of this section and in furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program. 

Confidential and exempt information in the database shall be released only as provided in 

paragraph (c) and s. 893.0551. The program manager, designated program and support staff who 

act at the direction of or in the absence of the program manager, and any individual who has 

similar access regarding the management of the database from the prescription drug monitoring 

program shall submit fingerprints to the department for background screening. The department 

shall follow the procedure established by the Department of Law Enforcement to request a 

statewide criminal history record check and to request that the Department of Law Enforcement 

forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history 

record check. 

(c)The following entities shall not be allowed direct access to information in the prescription 

drug monitoring program database but may request from the program manager and, when 

authorized by the program manager, the program manager's program and support staff, 

information that is confidential and exempt under s. 893.0551. Prior to release, the request shall 





received for up to 24 months before purging it from his or her records or maintain it for longer than 

24 months if the information is pertinent to ongoing health care or an active law enforcement 

investigation or prosecution. 

(f)The program manager, upon determining a pattern consistent with the rules established 

under paragraph (2)(d) and having cause to believe a violation of s. 893.13(7)(a)8., (8)(a), or (8)(b) 

has occurred, may provide relevant information to the applicable law enforcement agency. 

(8)To assist in fulfilling program responsibilities, performance measures shall be reported 

annually to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of 

Representatives by the department each December 1, beginning in 2011. Data that does not 

contain patient, physician, health care practitioner, prescriber, or dispenser identifying 

information may be requested during the year by department employees so that the department 

may undertake public health care and safety initiatives that take advantage of observed trends. 

Performance measures may include, but are not limited to, efforts to achieve the following 

outcomes: 

(a)Reduction of the rate of inappropriate use of prescription drugs through department 

education and safety efforts. 

(b)Reduction of the quantity of pharmaceutical controlled substances obtained by individuals 

attempting to engage in fraud and deceit. 

(c)Increased coordination among partners participating in the prescription drug monitoring 

program. 

(d)Involvement of stakeholders in achieving improved patient health care and safety and 

reduction of prescription drug abuse and prescription drug diversion. 

(9)Any person who willfully and knowingly fails to report the dispensing of a controlled 

substance as required by this section commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(10)All costs incurred by the department in administering the prescription drug monitoring 

program shall be funded through federal grants or private funding applied for or received by the 

state. The department may not commit funds for the monitoring program without ensuring funding 

is available. The prescription drug monitoring program and the implementation thereof are 

contingent upon receipt of the nonstate funding. The department and state government shall 

cooperate with the direct-support organization established pursuant to subsection (11) in seeking 

federal grant funds, other nonstate grant funds, gifts, donations, or other private moneys for the 

department so long as the costs of doing so are not considered material. Nonmaterial costs for this 

purpose include, but are not limited to, the costs of mailing and personnel assigned to research or 

apply for a grant. Notwithstanding the exemptions to competitive-solicitation requirements under 

s. 287.057(3)(f), the department shall comply with the competitive-solicitation requirements under 



s. 287.057 for the procurement of any goods or services required by this section. Funds provided, 

directly or indirectly, by prescription drug manufacturers may not be used to implement the 

program. 

(11 )The department may establish a direct-support organization that has a board consisting of 

at least five members to provide assistance, funding, and promotional support for the activities 

authorized for the prescription drug monitoring program. 

(a)As used in this subsection, the term "direct-support organization" means an organization 

that is: 

1 .A Florida corporation not for profit incorporated under chapter 617, exempted from filing 

fees, and approved by the Department of State. 

2.Organized and operated to conduct programs and activities; raise funds; request and receive 

grants, gifts, and bequests of money; acquire, receive, hold, and invest, in its own name, 

securities, funds, objects of value, or other property, either real or personal; and make 

expenditures or provide funding to or for the direct or indirect benefit of the department in the 

furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program. 

(b)The direct-support organization is not considered a lobbying firm within the meaning of s. 

11.045. 

(c)The State Surgeon General shall appoint a board of directors for the direct-support 

organization. Members of the board shall serve at the pleasure of the State Surgeon General. The 

State Surgeon General shall provide guidance to members of the board to ensure that moneys 

received by the direct-support organization are not received from inappropriate sources. 

Inappropriate sources include, but are not limited to, donors, grantors, persons, or organizations 

that may monetarily or substantively benefit from the purchase of goods or services by the 

department in furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program. 

(d)The direct-support organization shall operate under written contract with the department. 

The contract must, at a minimum, provide for: 

1 .Approval of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of the direct-support organization by 

the department. 

2.Submission of an annual budget for the approval of the department. 

3.Certification by the department that the direct-support organization is complying with the 

terms of the contract in a manner consistent with and in furtherance of the goals and purposes of 

the prescription drug monitoring program and in the best interests of the state. Such certification 

must be made annually and reported in the official minutes of a meeting of the direct-support 

organization. 

4.The reversion, without penalty, to the state of all moneys and property held in trust by the 

direct-support organization for the benefit of the prescription drug monitoring program if the 



direct-support organization ceases to exist or if the contract is terminated. 

5.The fiscal year of the direct-support organization, which must begin July 1 of each year and 

end June 30 of the following year. 

6.The disclosure of the material provisions of the contract to donors of gifts, contributions, or 

bequests, including such disclosure on all promotional and fundraising publications, and an 

explanation to such donors of the distinction between the department and the direct-support 

organization. 

7.The direct-support organization's collecting, expending, and providing of funds to the 

department for the development, implementation, and operation of the prescription drug 

monitoring program as described in this section and s. 2, chapter 2009-198, Laws of Florida, as long 

as the task force is authorized. The direct-support organization may collect and expend funds to be 

used for the functions of the direct-support organization's board of directors, as necessary and 

approved by the department. In addition, the direct-support organization may collect and provide 

funding to the department in furtherance of the prescription drug monitoring program by: 

a.Establishing and administering the prescription drug monitoring program's electronic 

database, including hardware and software. 

b.Conducting studies on the efficiency and effectiveness of the program to include feasibility 

studies as described in subsection (13). 

c.Providing funds for future enhancements of the program within the intent of this section. 

d.Providing user training of the prescription drug monitoring program, including distribution of 

materials to promote public awareness and education and conducting workshops or other meetings, 

for health care practitioners, pharmacists, and others as appropriate. 

e.Providing funds for travel expenses. 

f.Providing funds for administrative costs, including personnel, audits, facilities, and 

equipment. 

g.Fulfilling all other requirements necessary to implement and operate the program as 

outlined in this section. 

(e)The activities of the direct-support organization must be consistent with the goals and 

mission of the department, as determined by the department, and in the best interests of the 

state. The direct-support organization must obtain a written approval from the department for any 

activities in support of the prescription drug monitoring program before undertaking those 

activities. 

(f)The department may permit, without charge, appropriate use of administrative services, 

property, and facilities of the department by the direct-support organization, subject to this 

section. The use must be directly in keeping with the approved purposes of the direct-support 

organization and may not be made at times or places that would unreasonably interfere with 



opportunities for the public to use such facilities for established purposes. Any moneys received 

from rentals of facilities and properties managed by the department may be held in a separate 

depository account in the name of the direct-support organization and subject to the provisions of 

the letter of agreement with the department. The letter of agreement must provide that any funds 

held in the separate depository account in the name of the direct-support organization must revert 

to the department if the direct-support organization is no longer approved by the department to 

operate in the best interests of the state. 

(g)The department may adopt rules under s. 120.54 to govern the use of administrative 

services, property, or facilities of the department or office by the direct-support organization. 

(h)The department may not permit the use of any administrative services, property, or 

facilities of the state by a direct-support organization if that organization does not provide equal 

membership and employment opportunities to all persons regardless of race, color, religion, 

gender, age, or national origin. 

(i)The direct-support organization shall provide for an independent annual financial audit in 

accordance with s. 215.981. Copies of the audit shall be provided to the department and the Office 

of Policy and Budget in the Executive Office of the Governor. 

(j)The direct-support organization may not exercise any power under s. 61 7.0302(12) or (16). 

(12)A prescriber or dispenser may have access to the information under this section which 

relates to a patient of that prescriber or dispenser as needed for the purpose of reviewing the 

patient's controlled drug prescription history. A prescriber or dispenser acting in good faith is 

immune from any civil, criminal, or administrative liability that might otherwise be incurred or 

imposed for receiving or using information from the prescription drug monitoring program. This 

subsection does not create a private cause of action, and a person may not recover damages 

against a prescriber or dispenser authorized to access information under this subsection for 

accessing or failing to access such information. 

(13)10 the extent that funding is provided for such purpose through federal or private grants 

or gifts and other types of available moneys, the department shall study the feasibility of 

enhancing the prescription drug monitoring program for the purposes of public health initiatives 

and statistical reporting that respects the privacy of the patient, the prescriber, and the dispenser. 

Such a study shall be conducted in order to further improve the quality of health care services and 

safety by improving the prescribing and dispensing practices for prescription drugs, taking 

advantage of advances in technology, reducing duplicative prescriptions and the overprescribing of 

prescription drugs, and reducing drug abuse. The requirements of the National All Schedules 

Prescription Electronic Reporting (NASPER) Act are authorized in order to apply for federal NASPER 

funding. In addition, the direct-support organization shall provide funding for the department to 

conduct training for health care practitioners and other appropriate persons in using the monitoring 



program to support the program enhancements. 

(14)A pharmacist, pharmacy, or dispensing health care practitioner or his or her agent, before 

releasing a controlled substance to any person not known to such dispenser, shall require the 

person purchasing, receiving, or otherwise acquiring the controlled substance to present valid 

photographic identification or other verification of his or her identity to the dispenser. If the 

person does not have proper identification, the dispenser may verify the validity of the prescription 

and the identity of the patient with the prescriber or his or her authorized agent. Verification of 

health plan eligibility through a real-time inquiry or adjudication system will be considered to be 

proper identification. This subsection does not apply in an institutional setting or to a long-term 

care facility, including, but not limited to, an assisted living facility or a hospital to which patients 

are admitted. As used in this subsection, the term "proper identification" means an identification 

that is issued by a state or the Federal Government containing the person's photograph, printed 

name, and signature or a document considered acceptable under 8 C.F.R. s. 274a.2(b)(1 )(v)(A) and 

(B). 

(15)The Agency for Health Care Administration shall continue the promotion of electronic 

prescribing by health care practitioners, health care facilities, and pharmacies under s. 408.0611. 

(16)The department shall adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to administer the 

provisions of this section, which shall include as necessary the reporting, accessing, evaluation, 

management, development, implementation, operation, and storage of information within the 

monitoring program's system. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2009-198; s. 41, ch. 2010-151; s. 12, ch. 2010-211; s. 50, ch. 2011-4; s. 23, ch. 2011-141; s. 86, 

ch. 2012-5. 

893.O55lPubIic records exemption for the prescription drug monitoring program.— 

(1 )For purposes of this section, the term: 

(a)"Active investigation" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(b)"Dispenser" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(c)"Health care practitioner" or "practitioner" has the same meaning as provided in s. 

893.055. 

(d)"Health care regulatory board" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(e)"Law enforcement agency" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(f)"Pharmacist" means any person licensed under chapter 465 to practice the profession of 

pharmacy. 

(g)"Pharmacy" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(h)"Prescriber" has the same meaning as provided in s. 893.055. 

(2)The following information of a patient or patient's agent, a health care practitioner, a 

dispenser, an employee of the practitioner who is acting on behalf of and at the direction of the 



practitioner, a pharmacist, or a pharmacy that is contained in records held by the department 

under s. 893.055 is confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State 

Constitution: 

(a)Name. 

(b)Address. 

(c)Telephone number. 

(d)Insurance plan number. 

(e)Government-issued identification number. 

(f)Provider number. 

(g)Drug Enforcement Administration number. 

(h)Any other unique identifying information or number. 

(3)The department shall disclose such confidential and exempt information to the following 

entities after using a verification process to ensure the legitimacy of that person's or entity's 

request for the information: 

(a)The Attorney General and his or her designee when working on Medicaid fraud cases 

involving prescription drugs or when the Attorney General has initiated a review of specific 

identifiers of Medicaid fraud regarding prescription drugs. The Attorney General or his or her 

designee may disclose the confidential and exempt information received from the department to a 

criminal justice agency as defined in s. 119.011 as part of an active investigation that is specific to 

a violation of prescription drug abuse or prescription drug diversion law as it relates to controlled 

substances. The Attorney General's Medicaid fraud investigators may not have direct access to the 

department's database. 

(b)The department's relevant health care regulatory boards responsible for the licensure, 

regulation, or discipline of a practitioner, pharmacist, or other person who is authorized to 

prescribe, administer, or dispense controlled substances and who is involved in a specific 

controlled substances investigation for prescription drugs involving a designated person. The health 

care regulatory boards may request information from the department but may not have direct 

access to its database. The health care regulatory boards may provide such information to a law 

enforcement agency pursuant to ss. 456.066 and 456.073. 

(c)A law enforcement agency that has initiated an active investigation involving a specific 

violation of law regarding prescription drug abuse or diversion of prescribed controlled substances. 

The law enforcement agency may disclose the confidential and exempt information received from 

the department to a criminal justice agency as defined ins. 119.011 as part of an active 

investigation that is specific to a violation of prescription drug abuse or prescription drug diversion 

law as it relates to controlled substances. A law enforcement agency may request information from 

the department but may not have direct access to its database. 



(d)A health care practitioner who certifies that the information is necessary to provide 

medical treatment to a current patient in accordance with ss. 893.05 and 893.055. 

(e)A pharmacist who certifies that the requested information will be used to dispense 

controlled substances to a current patient in accordance with ss. 893.04 and 893.055. 

(f)A patient or the legal guardian or designated health care surrogate for an incapacitated 

patient, if applicable, making a request as provided in s. 893.055(7)(c)4. 

(g)The patient's pharmacy, prescriber, or dispenser who certifies that the information is 

necessary to provide medical treatment to his or her current patient in accordance with s. 893.055. 

(4)The department shall disclose such confidential and exempt information to the applicable 

law enforcement agency in accordance with s. 893.055(7)(f). The law enforcement agency may 

disclose the confidential and exempt information received from the department to a criminal 

justice agency as defined in s. 119.011 as part of an active investigation that is specific to a 

violation of s. 893.13(7)(a)8., s. 893.13(8)(a), or s. 893.13(8)(b). 

(5)Any agency or person who obtains such confidential and exempt information pursuant to 

this section must maintain the confidential and exempt status of that information. 

(6)Any person who willfully and knowingly violates this section commits a felony of the third 

degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(7)This section is subject to the Open Government Sunset Review Act in accordance with s. 

119.15 and shall stand repealed on October 2, 2014, unless reviewed and saved from repeal 

through reenactment by the Legislature. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2009-197; s. 13, ch. 2010-211; s. 51, ch. 2011-4. 

893.O6Distribution of controlled substances; order forms; labeling and packaging 

requirements.— 

(1 )Controlled substances in Schedules I and II shall be distributed by a duly licensed 

manufacturer, distributor, or wholesaler to a duly licensed manufacturer, wholesaler, distributor, 

practitioner, pharmacy, as defined in chapter 465, hospital, or laboratory only pursuant to an order 

form. It shall be deemed a compliance with this subsection if the parties to the transaction have 

complied with federal law respecting the use of order forms. 

(2)Possession or control of controlled substances obtained as authorized by this section shall 

be lawful if in the regular course of business, occupation, profession, employment, or duty. 

(3)A person in charge of a hospital or laboratory or in the employ of this state or of any other 

state, or of any political subdivision thereof, and a master or other proper officer of a ship or 

aircraft, who obtains controlled substances under the provisions of this section or otherwise, shall 

not administer, dispense, or otherwise use such controlled substances within this state, except 

within the scope of her or his employment or official duty, and then only for scientific or medicinal 

purposes and subject to the provisions of this chapter. 



(4)It shall be unlawful to distribute a controlled substance in a commercial container unless 

such container bears a label showing the name and address of the manufacturer, the quantity, 

kind, and form of controlled substance contained therein, and the identifying symbol for such 

substance, as required by federal law. No person except a pharmacist, for the purpose of 

dispensing a prescription, or a practitioner, for the purpose of dispensing a controlled substance to 

a patient, shall alter, deface, or remove any labels so affixed. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 73-331; s. 1438, ch. 97-102. 

893.O65Counterfeit-resistant prescription blanks for controlled substances listed in 

Schedule II, Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V.—The Department of Health shall develop 

and adopt by rule the form and content for a counterfeit-resistant prescription blank which must 

be used by practitioners for the purpose of prescribing a controlled substance listed in Schedule II, 

Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V pursuant to s. 456.42. The Department of Health may 

require the prescription blanks to be printed on distinctive, watermarked paper and to bear the 

preprinted name, address, and category of professional licensure of the practitioner and that 

practitioner's federal registry number for controlled substances. The prescription blanks may not 

be transferred. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 2007-156; s. 24, ch. 2011-141. 

893.O7Records.— 

(1 )Every person who engages in the manufacture, compounding, mixing, cultivating, growing, 

or by any other process producing or preparing, or in the dispensing, importation, or, as a 

wholesaler, distribution, of controlled substances shall: 

(a)On January 1, 1974, or as soon thereafter as any person first engages in such activity, and 

every second year thereafter, make a complete and accurate record of all stocks of controlled 

substances on hand. The inventory may be prepared on the regular physical inventory date which is 

nearest to, and does not vary by more than 6 months from, the biennial date that would otherwise 

apply. As additional substances are designated for control under this chapter, they shall be 

inventoried as provided for in this subsection. 

(b)On and after January 1, 1974, maintain, on a current basis, a complete and accurate record 

of each substance manufactured, received, sold, delivered, or otherwise disposed of by him or her, 

except that this subsection shall not require the maintenance of a perpetual inventory. 

Compliance with the provisions of federal law pertaining to the keeping of records of controlled 

substances shall be deemed a compliance with the requirements of this subsection. 

(2)The record of controlled substances received shall in every case show: 

(a)The date of receipt. 

(b)The name and address of the person from whom received. 

(c)The kind and quantity of controlled substances received. 





or compound designated as a Schedule II controlled substance pursuant to this chapter; in s. 

893.03(3)(a); or in Schedule IV, if: 

1 .The compound, mixture, or preparation contains one or more active medicinal ingredients 

not having depressant or stimulant effect on the central nervous system, and 

2.Such ingredients are included therein in such combinations, quantity, proportion, or 

concentration as to vitiate the potential for abuse of the controlled substances which do have a 

depressant or stimulant effect on the central nervous system. 

(2)No compound, mixture, or preparation may be dispensed under subsection (1) unless such 

substance may, under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, be lawfully sold at retail without 

a prescription. 

(3)The exemptions authorized by this section shall be subject to the following conditions: 

(a)The compounds, mixtures, and preparations referred to in subsection (1) may be dispensed 

to persons under age 18 only on prescription. A bound volume must be maintained as a record of 

sale at retail of excepted compounds, mixtures, and preparations, and the pharmacist must require 

suitable identification from every unknown purchaser. 

(b)Such compounds, mixtures, and preparations shall be sold by the pharmacist in good faith 

as a medicine and not for the purpose of evading the provisions of this chapter. The pharmacist 

may, in his or her discretion, withhold sale to any person whom the pharmacist reasonably believes 

is attempting to purchase excepted compounds, mixtures, or preparations for the purpose of 

abuse. 

(c)The total quantity of controlled substance listed in Schedule V which may be sold to any 

one purchaser within a given 48-hour period shall not exceed 120 milligrams of codeine, 60 

milligrams dihydrocodeine, 30 milligrams of ethyl morphine, or 240 milligrams of opium. 

(d)Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the kind and quantity of any controlled 

substance that may be prescribed, administered, or dispensed to any person, or for the use of any 

person or animal, when it is prescribed, administered, or dispensed in compliance with the general 

provisions of this chapter. 

(4)The dextrorotatory isomer of 3-methoxy-n-methylmorphinan and its salts 

(dextromethorphan) shall not be deemed to be included in any schedule by reason of enactment of 

this chapter. 

History.—s. 8, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 6, ch. 80-354; s. 4, ch. 89-281; s. 2, ch. 93-92; s. 1440, ch. 97-102; 

s. 105, ch. 97-264; s. 12, ch. 99-186. 

893.O9Enforcement.— 

(1 )The Department of Law Enforcement, all state agencies which regulate professions or 

institutions affected by the provisions of this chapter, and all peace officers of the state shall 

enforce all provisions of this chapter except those specifically delegated, and shall cooperate with 



all agencies charged with the enforcement of the laws of the United States, this state, and all 

other states relating to controlled substances. 

(2)Any agency authorized to enforce this chapter shall have the right to institute an action in 

its own name to enjoin the violation of any of the provisions of this chapter. Said action for an 

injunction shall be in addition to any other action, proceeding, or remedy authorized by law. 

(3)All law enforcement officers whose duty it is to enforce this chapter shall have authority to 

administer oaths in connection with their official duties, and any person making a material false 

statement under oath before such law enforcement officers shall be deemed guilty of perjury and 

subject to the same punishment as prescribed for perjury. 

(4)It shall be unlawful and punishable as provided in chapter 843 for any person to interfere 

with any such law enforcement officer in the performance of the officer's official duties. It shall 

also be unlawful for any person falsely to represent himself or herself to be authorized to enforce 

the drug abuse laws of this state, the United States, or any other state. 

(5)No civil or criminal liability shall be imposed by virtue of this chapter upon any person 

whose duty it is to enforce the provisions of this chapter, by reason of his or her being lawfully 

engaged in the enforcement of any law or municipal ordinance relating to controlled substances. 

History.—s. 9, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 30, ch. 79-8; s. 1441, ch. 97-102. 

893.lOBurden of proof; photograph or video recording of evidence.— 

(1 )It is not necessary for the state to negative any exemption or exception set forth in this 

chapter in any indictment, information, or other pleading or in any trial, hearing, or other 

proceeding under this chapter, and the burden of going forward with the evidence with respect to 

any exemption or exception is upon the person claiming its benefit. 

(2)In the prosecution of an offense involving the manufacture of a controlled substance, a 

photograph or video recording of the manufacturing equipment used in committing the offense, 

including, but not limited to, grow lights, growing trays, and chemical fertilizers, may be 

introduced as competent evidence of the existence and use of the equipment and is admissible in 

the prosecution of the offense to the same extent as if the property were introduced as evidence. 

(3)After a law enforcement agency documents the manufacturing equipment by photography 

or video recording, the manufacturing equipment may be destroyed on site and left in disrepair. 

The law enforcement agency destroying the equipment is immune from civil liability for the 

destruction of the equipment. The destruction of the equipment must be recorded by the 

supervising law enforcement officer in the manner described ins. 893.12(1)(a), and records must 

be maintained for 24 months. 

History.—s. 10, ch. 73-331; s. 1442, ch. 97-102; s. 3, ch. 2008-184; s. 19, ch. 2010-117. 

893.101 Legislative findings and intent.— 

(1 )The Legislature finds that the cases of Scott v. State, Slip Opinion No. 5C94701 (Fla. 2002) 



and Chicone v. State, 684 So.2d 736 (Fla. 1996), holding that the state must prove that the 

defendant knew of the illicit nature of a controlled substance found in his or her actual or 

constructive possession, were contrary to legislative intent. 

(2)The Legislature finds that knowledge of the illicit nature of a controlled substance is not an 

element of any offense under this chapter. Lack of knowledge of the illicit nature of a controlled 

substance is an affirmative defense to the offenses of this chapter. 

(3)In those instances in which a defendant asserts the affirmative defense described in this 

section, the possession of a controlled substance, whether actual or constructive, shall give rise to 

a permissive presumption that the possessor knew of the illicit nature of the substance. It is the 

intent of the Legislature that, in those cases where such an affirmative defense is raised, the jury 

shall be instructed on the permissive presumption provided in this subsection. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2002-258. 

893.lo5Testing and destruction of seized substances.— 

(1 )Any controlled substance or listed chemical seized as evidence may be sample tested and 

weighed by the seizing agency after the seizure. Any such sample and the analysis thereof shall be 

admissible into evidence in any civil or criminal action for the purpose of proving the nature, 

composition, and weight of the substance seized. In addition, the seizing agency may photograph 

or videotape, for use at trial, the controlled substance or listed chemical seized. 

(2)Controlled substances or listed chemicals that are not retained for sample testing as 

provided in subsection (1) may be destroyed pursuant to a court order issued in accordance with s. 

893.12. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 82-88; s. 3, ch. 91 -279. 

893.1 iSuspension, revocation, and reinstatement of business and professional licenses.— 

For the purposes of s. 120.60(6), any conviction in any court reported to the Comprehensive Case 

Information System of the Florida Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers, Inc., for the sale 

of, or trafficking in, a controlled substance or for conspiracy to sell, or traffic in, a controlled 

substance constitutes an immediate serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare, and is 

grounds for disciplinary action by the licensing state agency. A state agency shall initiate an 

immediate emergency suspension of an individual professional license issued by the agency, in 

compliance with the procedures for summary suspensions in s. 120.60(6), upon the agency's 

findings of the licensee's conviction in any court reported to the Comprehensive Case Information 

System of the Florida Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers, Inc., for the sale of, or 

trafficking in, a controlled substance, or for conspiracy to sell, or traffic in, a controlled substance. 

Before renewing any professional license, a state agency that issues a professional license must use 

the Comprehensive Case Information System of the Florida Association of Court Clerks and 

Comptrollers, Inc., to obtain information relating to any conviction for the sale of, or trafficking in, 



a controlled substance or for conspiracy to sell, or traffic in, a controlled substance. The clerk of 

court shall provide electronic access to each state agency at no cost and also provide certified 

copies of the judgment upon request to the agency. Upon a showing by any such convicted 

defendant whose professional license has been suspended or revoked pursuant to this section that 

his or her civil rights have been restored or upon a showing that the convicted defendant meets the 

following criteria, the agency head may reinstate or reactivate such license when: 

(1 )The person has complied with the conditions of paragraphs (a) and (b) which shall be 

monitored by the Department of Corrections while the person is under any supervisory sanction. If 

the person fails to comply with provisions of these paragraphs by either failing to maintain 

treatment or by testing positive for drug use, the department shall notify the licensing agency, 

which shall revoke the license. The person under supervision may: 

(a)Seek evaluation and enrollment in, and once enrolled maintain enrollment in until 

completion, a drug treatment and rehabilitation program which is approved or regulated by the 

Department of Children and Family Services. The treatment and rehabilitation program shall be 

specified by: 

1 .The court, in the case of court-ordered supervisory sanctions; 

2.The Parole Commission, in the case of parole, control release, or conditional release; or 

3.The Department of Corrections, in the case of imprisonment or any other supervision 

required by law. 

(b)Submit to periodic urine drug testing pursuant to procedures prescribed by the Department 

of Corrections. If the person is indigent, the costs shall be paid by the Department of Corrections; 

or 

(2)The person has successfully completed an appropriate program under the Correctional 

Education Program. 

(3)As used in this section, the term "professional license" includes any license, permit, or 

certificate that authorizes a person to practice his or her profession. However, the term does not 

include any of the taxes, fees, or permits regulated, controlled, or administered by the 

Department of Revenue in accordance with s. 213.05. 

History.—s. 11, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 77-117; s. 19, ch. 78-95; s. 3, ch. 90-266; s. 126, ch. 91-112; s. 14, ch. 95- 

325; s. 1443, ch. 97-102; s. 302, ch. 99-8; s. 18, ch. 2012-100. 

893.1 2Contraband; seizure, forfeiture, sale.— 

(1 )All substances controlled by this chapter and all listed chemicals, which substances or 

chemicals are handled, delivered, possessed, or distributed contrary to any provisions of this 

chapter, and all such controlled substances or listed chemicals the lawful possession of which is not 

established or the title to which cannot be ascertained, are declared to be contraband, are subject 

to seizure and confiscation by any person whose duty it is to enforce the provisions of the chapter, 



and shall be disposed of as follows: 

(a)Except as in this section otherwise provided, the court having jurisdiction shall order such 

controlled substances or listed chemicals forfeited and destroyed. A record of the place where said 

controlled substances or listed chemicals were seized, of the kinds and quantities of controlled 

substances or listed chemicals destroyed, and of the time, place, and manner of destruction shall 

be kept, and a return under oath reporting said destruction shall be made to the court by the 

officer who destroys them. 

(b)Upon written application by the Department of Health, the court by whom the forfeiture of 

such controlled substances or listed chemicals has been decreed may order the delivery of any of 

them to said department for distribution or destruction as hereinafter provided. 

(c)Upon application by any hospital or laboratory within the state not operated for private 

gain, the department may, in its discretion, deliver any controlled substances or listed chemicals 

that have come into its custody by authority of this section to the applicant for medical use. The 

department may from time to time deliver excess stocks of such controlled substances or listed 

chemicals to the United States Drug Enforcement Administration or destroy same. 

(d)The department shall keep a full and complete record of all controlled substances or listed 

chemicals received and of all controlled substances or listed chemicals disposed of, showing: 

1 .The exact kinds, quantities, and forms of such controlled substances or listed chemicals; 

2.The persons from whom received and to whom delivered; 

3.By whose authority received, delivered, and destroyed; and 

4.The dates of the receipt, disposal, or destruction, 

which record shall be open to inspection by all persons charged with the enforcement of federal 

and state drug abuse laws. 

(2)(a)Any vessel, vehicle, aircraft, or drug paraphernalia as defined in s. 893.145 which has 

been or is being used in violation of any provision of this chapter or in, upon, or by means of which 

any violation of this chapter has taken or is taking place may be seized and forfeited as provided by 

the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act. 

(b)All real property, including any right, title, leasehold interest, and other interest in the 

whole of any lot or tract of land and any appurtenances or improvements, which real property is 

used, or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to commit or to facilitate the commission of, 

or which real property is acquired with proceeds obtained as a result of, a violation of any 

provision of this chapter related to a controlled substance described in s. 893.03(1) or (2) may be 

seized and forfeited as provided by the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act except that no property 

shall be forfeited under this paragraph to the extent of an interest of an owner or lienholder by 

reason of any act or omission established by that owner or lienholder to have been committed or 

omitted without the knowledge or consent of that owner or lienholder. 



(c)A11 moneys, negotiable instruments, securities, and other things of value furnished or 

intended to be furnished by any person in exchange for a controlled substance described in s. 

893.03(1) or (2) or a listed chemical in violation of any provision of this chapter, all proceeds 

traceable to such an exchange, and all moneys, negotiable instruments, and securities used or 

intended to be used to facilitate any violation of any provision of this chapter or which are 

acquired with proceeds obtained in violation of any provision of this chapter may be seized and 

forfeited as provided by the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act, except that no property shall be 

forfeited under this paragraph to the extent of an interest of an owner or lienholder by reason of 

any act or omission established by that owner or lienholder to have been committed or omitted 

without the knowledge or consent of that owner or lienholder. 

(d)All books, records, and research, including formulas, microfilm, tapes, and data which are 

used, or intended for use, or which are acquired with proceeds obtained, in violation of any 

provision of this chapter related to a controlled substance described in s. 893.03(1) or (2) or a 

listed chemical may be seized and forfeited as provided by the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act. 

(e)If any of the property described in this subsection: 

1.Cannot be located; 

2.Has been transferred to, sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

3.Has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

4.Has been substantially diminished in value by any act or omission of the defendant; or 

5.Has been commingled with any property which cannot be divided without difficulty, 

the court shall order the forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the value of any 

property subject to forfeiture under this subsection. 

(3)Any law enforcement agency is empowered to authorize or designate officers, agents, or 

other persons to carry out the seizure provisions of this section. It shall be the duty of any officer, 

agent, or other person so authorized or designated, or authorized by law, whenever she or he shall 

discover any vessel, vehicle, aircraft, real property or interest in real property, money, negotiable 

instrument, security, book, record, or research which has been or is being used or intended to be 

used, or which is acquired with proceeds obtained, in violation of any of the provisions of this 

chapter, or in, upon, or by means of which any violation of this chapter has taken or is taking 

place, to seize such vessel, vehicle, aircraft, real property or interest in real property, money, 

negotiable instrument, security, book, record, or research and place it in the custody of such 

person as may be authorized or designated for that purpose by the respective law enforcement 

agency pursuant to these provisions. 

(4)The rights of any bona fide holder of a duly recorded mortgage or duly recorded vendor's 

privilege on the property seized under this chapter shall not be affected by the seizure. 

History.—s. 12, ch. 73-331; ss. 10, 11, ch. 74-385; s. 471, ch. 77-147; s. 185, ch. 79-164; s. 4, ch. 80-30; s. 9, ch. 



80-68; s. 5, ch. 89-148; s. 4, ch. 91 -279; s. 1444, ch. 97-102; s. 1, ch. 98-395; s. 303, ch. 99-8; s. 13, ch. 99-186; s. 

21, ch. 2000-320; s. 17, ch. 2004-11. 

893.1 3 Prohibited acts; penalties.— 

(1 )(a)Except as authorized by this chapter and chapter 499, it is unlawful for any person to 

sell, manufacture, or deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled 

substance. Any person who violates this provision with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(5) commits a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(b)Except as provided in this chapter, it is unlawful to sell or deliver in excess of 10 grams of 

any substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (1 )(b), or any combination thereof, or any 

mixture containing any such substance. Any person who violates this paragraph commits a felony of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(c)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a child care facility as defined in s. 402.302 or a 

public or private elementary, middle, or secondary school between the hours of 6 a.m. and 12 

midnight, or at any time in, on, or within 1,000 feet of real property comprising a state, county, or 

municipal park, a community center, or a publicly owned recreational facility. For the purposes of 

this paragraph, the term "community center" means a facility operated by a nonprofit community- 

based organization for the provision of recreational, social, or educational services to the public. 

Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. The defendant must be sentenced to a minimum term of imprisonment of 3 calendar 

years unless the offense was committed within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a child 

care facility as defined in s. 402.302. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 



be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

This paragraph does not apply to a child care facility unless the owner or operator of the facility 

posts a sign that is not less than 2 square feet in size with a word legend identifying the facility as 

a licensed child care facility and that is posted on the property of the child care facility in a 

conspicuous place where the sign is reasonably visible to the public. 

(d)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public or private college, university, or other 

postsecondary educational institution. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 

be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

(e)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance not 

authorized by law in, on, or within 1 ,000 feet of a physical place for worship at which a church or 

religious organization regularly conducts religious services or within 1 ,000 feet of a convenience 

business as defined in s. 812.171. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 

be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

(f)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public housing facility at any time. For purposes 



of this section, the term "real property comprising a public housing facility" means real property, 

as defined in s. 421.03(12), of a public corporation created as a housing authority pursuant to part I 

of chapter 421. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 

s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.Any other controlled substance, except as lawfully sold, manufactured, or delivered, must 

be sentenced to pay a $500 fine and to serve 100 hours of public service in addition to any other 

penalty prescribed by law. 

(g)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to manufacture 

methamphetamine or phencyclidine, or possess any listed chemical as defined in s. 893.033 in 

violation of s. 893.149 and with intent to manufacture methamphetamine or phencyclidine. If any 

person violates this paragraph and: 

1 .The commission or attempted commission of the crime occurs in a structure or conveyance 

where any child under 16 years of age is present, the person commits a felony of the first degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. In addition, the defendant must be 

sentenced to a minimum term of imprisonment of 5 calendar years. 

2.The commission of the crime causes any child under 16 years of age to suffer great bodily 

harm, the person commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084. In addition, the defendant must be sentenced to a minimum term of 

imprisonment of 10 calendar years. 

(h)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person to sell, manufacture, or 

deliver, or possess with intent to sell, manufacture, or deliver, a controlled substance in, on, or 

within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising an assisted living facility, as that term is used in 

chapter 429. Any person who violates this paragraph with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4. commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)(a)Except as authorized by this chapter and chapter 499, it is unlawful for any person to 

purchase, or possess with intent to purchase, a controlled substance. Any person who violates this 



provision with respect to: 

1 .A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), or 

(2)(c)4., commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. 

2.Acontrolled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

3.A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(5) commits a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(b)Except as provided in this chapter, it is unlawful to purchase in excess of 10 grams of any 

substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (1 )(b), or any combination thereof, or any 

mixture containing any such substance. Any person who violates this paragraph commits a felony of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)Any person who delivers, without consideration, not more than 20 grams of cannabis, as 

defined in this chapter, commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082 or s. 775.083. For the purposes of this paragraph, "cannabis" does not include the resin 

extracted from the plants of the genus Cannabis or any compound manufacture, salt, derivative, 

mixture, or preparation of such resin. 

(4)Except as authorized by this chapter, it is unlawful for any person 18 years of age or older 

to deliver any controlled substance to a person under the age of 18 years, or to use or hire a person 

under the age of 18 years as an agent or employee in the sale or delivery of such a substance, or to 

use such person to assist in avoiding detection or apprehension for a violation of this chapter. Any 

person who violates this provision with respect to: 

(a)A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), 

or (2)(c)4., commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. 

(b)A controlled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

Imposition of sentence may not be suspended or deferred, nor shall the person so convicted be 

placed on probation. 

(5)It is unlawful for any person to bring into this state any controlled substance unless the 

possession of such controlled substance is authorized by this chapter or unless such person is 

licensed to do so by the appropriate federal agency. Any person who violates this provision with 

respect to: 

(a)A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a), (1 )(b), (1 )(d), (2)(a), (2)(b), 



or (2)(c)4., commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)A controlled substance named or described ins. 893.03(1)(c), (2)(c)1., (2)(c)2., (2)(c)3., 

(2)(c)5., (2)(c)6., (2)(c)7., (2)(c)8., (2)(c)9., (3), or (4) commits a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(c)A controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(5) commits a misdemeanor of the 

first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(6)(a)It is unlawful for any person to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled 

substance unless such controlled substance was lawfully obtained from a practitioner or pursuant 

to a valid prescription or order of a practitioner while acting in the course of his or her professional 

practice or to be in actual or constructive possession of a controlled substance except as otherwise 

authorized by this chapter. Any person who violates this provision commits a felony of the third 

degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)If the offense is the possession of not more than 20 grams of cannabis, as defined in this 

chapter, or 3 grams or less of a controlled substance described ins. 893.03(1)(c)46.-50. and 114.- 

142., the person commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 

or s. 775.083. For the purposes of this subsection, "cannabis" does not include the resin extracted 

from the plants of the genus Cannabis, or any compound manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or 

preparation of such resin, and a controlled substance described in s. 893.03(1 )(c)46.-50. and 114.- 

142. does not include the substance in a powdered form. 

(c)Except as provided in this chapter, it is unlawful to possess in excess of 10 grams of any 

substance named or described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (1 )(b), or any combination thereof, or any 

mixture containing any such substance. Any person who violates this paragraph commits a felony of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(d)Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary of the laws of this state relating to arrest, a 

law enforcement officer may arrest without warrant any person who the officer has probable cause 

to believe is violating the provisions of this chapter relating to possession of cannabis. 

(7)(a)A person may not: 

1 .Distribute or dispense a controlled substance in violation of this chapter. 

2.Refuse or fail to make, keep, or furnish any record, notification, order form, statement, 

invoice, or information required under this chapter. 

3.Refuse entry into any premises for any inspection or refuse to allow any inspection 

authorized by this chapter. 

4.Distribute a controlled substance named or described in s. 893.03(1) or (2) except pursuant 

to an order form as required by s. 893.06. 

5.Keep or maintain any store, shop, warehouse, dwelling, building, vehicle, boat, aircraft, or 



other structure or place which is resorted to by persons using controlled substances in violation of 

this chapter for the purpose of using these substances, or which is used for keeping or selling them 

in violation of this chapter. 

6.Use to his or her own personal advantage, or reveal, any information obtained in 

enforcement of this chapter except in a prosecution or administrative hearing for a violation of this 

chapter. 

7.Possess a prescription form which has not been completed and signed by the practitioner 

whose name appears printed thereon, unless the person is that practitioner, is an agent or 

employee of that practitioner, is a pharmacist, or is a supplier of prescription forms who is 

authorized by that practitioner to possess those forms. 

8.Withhold information from a practitioner from whom the person seeks to obtain a controlled 

substance or a prescription for a controlled substance that the person making the request has 

received a controlled substance or a prescription for a controlled substance of like therapeutic use 

from another practitioner within the previous 30 days. 

9.Acquire or obtain, or attempt to acquire or obtain, possession of a controlled substance by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, or subterfuge. 

10.Affix any false or forged label to a package or receptacle containing a controlled 

substance. 

11 .Furnish false or fraudulent material information in, or omit any material information from, 

any report or other document required to be kept or filed under this chapter or any record 

required to be kept by this chapter. 

12.Store anhydrous ammonia in a container that is not approved by the United States 

Department of Transportation to hold anhydrous ammonia or is not constructed in accordance with 

sound engineering, agricultural, or commercial practices. 

13.With the intent to obtain a controlled substance or combination of controlled substances 

that are not medically necessary for the person or an amount of a controlled substance or 

substances that is not medically necessary for the person, obtain or attempt to obtain from a 

practitioner a controlled substance or a prescription for a controlled substance by 

misrepresentation, fraud, forgery, deception, subterfuge, or concealment of a material fact. For 

purposes of this subparagraph, a material fact includes whether the person has an existing 

prescription for a controlled substance issued for the same period of time by another practitioner 

or as described in subparagraph 8. 

(b)A health care practitioner, with the intent to provide a controlled substance or combination 

of controlled substances that are not medically necessary to his or her patient or an amount of 

controlled substances that is not medically necessary for his or her patient, may not provide a 

controlled substance or a prescription for a controlled substance by misrepresentation, fraud, 



forgery, deception, subterfuge, or concealment of a material fact. For purposes of this paragraph, 

a material fact includes whether the patient has an existing prescription for a controlled substance 

issued for the same period of time by another practitioner or as described in subparagraph (a)8. 

(c)Any person who violates the provisions of subparagraphs (a)1 . -7. commits a misdemeanor of 

the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083; except that, upon a second or 

subsequent violation, the person commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(d)Any person who violates the provisions of subparagraphs (a)8.-12. commits a felony of the 

third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(e)A person or health care practitioner who violates the provisions of subparagraph (a)13. or 

paragraph (b) commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 

775.083, or s. 775.084, if any controlled substance that is the subject of the offense is listed in 

Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV. 

(8)(a)Notwithstanding subsection (9), a prescribing practitioner may not: 

1 .Knowingly assist a patient, other person, or the owner of an animal in obtaining a controlled 

substance through deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of 

the prescribing practitioner's professional practice; 

2.Employ a trick or scheme in the practice of the prescribing practitioner's professional 

practice to assist a patient, other person, or the owner of an animal in obtaining a controlled 

substance; 

3.Knowingly write a prescription for a controlled substance for a fictitious person; or 

4.Write a prescription for a controlled substance for a patient, other person, or an animal if 

the sole purpose of writing such prescription is to provide a monetary benefit to, or obtain a 

monetary benefit for, the prescribing practitioner. 

(b)If the prescribing practitioner wrote a prescription or multiple prescriptions for a controlled 

substance for the patient, other person, or animal for which there was no medical necessity, or 

which was in excess of what was medically necessary to treat the patient, other person, or animal, 

that fact does not give rise to any presumption that the prescribing practitioner violated 

subparagraph (a)1., but may be considered with other competent evidence in determining whether 

the prescribing practitioner knowingly assisted a patient, other person, or the owner of an animal 

to obtain a controlled substance in violation of subparagraph (a)1. 

(c)A person who violates paragraph (a) commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(d)Notwithstanding paragraph (c), if a prescribing practitioner has violated paragraph (a) and 

received $1 ,000 or more in payment for writing one or more prescriptions or, in the case of a 

prescription written for a controlled substance described in s. 893.135, has written one or more 



prescriptions for a quantity of a controlled substance which, individually or in the aggregate, meets 

the threshold for the offense of trafficking in a controlled substance under s. 893.15, the violation 

is reclassified as a felony of the second degree and ranked in level 4 of the Criminal Punishment 

Code. 

(9)The provisions of subsections (1 )-(8) are not applicable to the delivery to, or actual or 

constructive possession for medical or scientific use or purpose only of controlled substances by, 

persons included in any of the following classes, or the agents or employees of such persons, for 

use in the usual course of their business or profession or in the performance of their official duties: 

(a)Pharmacists. 

(b )Practitioners. 

(c)Persons who procure controlled substances in good faith and in the course of professional 

practice only, by or under the supervision of pharmacists or practitioners employed by them, or for 

the purpose of lawful research, teaching, or testing, and not for resale. 

(d)Hospitals that procure controlled substances for lawful administration by practitioners, but 

only for use by or in the particular hospital. 

(e)Officers or employees of state, federal, or local governments acting in their official 

capacity only, or informers acting under their jurisdiction. 

(f)Common carriers. 

(g)Manufacturers, wholesalers, and distributors. 

(h)Law enforcement officers for bona fide law enforcement purposes in the course of an 

active criminal investigation. 

(10)If a person violates any provision of this chapter and the violation results in a serious 

injury to a state or local law enforcement officer as defined in s. 943.10, firefighter as defined in 

s. 633.30, emergency medical technician as defined in s. 401 .23, paramedic as defined in s. 

401 .23, employee of a public utility or an electric utility as defined in s. 366.02, animal control 

officer as defined in s. 828.27, volunteer firefighter engaged by state or local government, law 

enforcement officer employed by the Federal Government, or any other local, state, or Federal 

Government employee injured during the course and scope of his or her employment, the person 

commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. If the injury sustained results in death or great bodily harm, the person commits a felony 

of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

History.—s. 13, ch. 73-331; s. 1, ch. 76-200; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 2, ch. 79-1; s. 3, ch. 79-325; s. 5, ch. 80-30; s. 2, 

ch. 80-70; s. 490, ch. 81 -259; s. 2, ch. 82-16; s. 52, ch. 83-215; s. 1, ch. 84-77; s. 5, ch. 85-242; s. 4, ch. 87-243; s. 

2, ch. 88-381; s. 4, ch. 89-281; s. 1, ch. 89-524; ss. 1, 6, ch. 90-111; s. 1, ch. 93-59; s. 2, ch. 93-92; s. 1, ch. 93-194; 

ss. 22, 23, ch. 93-406; s. 2, ch. 96-360; s. 2, ch. 97-1; s. 1, ch. 97-43; s. 1827, ch. 97-102; s. 22, ch. 97-194; s. 106, 

ch. 97-264; s. 1, ch. 97-269; s. 47, ch. 97-271; s. 1, ch. 98-22; s. 1, ch. 99-154; s. 14, ch. 99-186; s. 3, ch. 2000-320; 



s. 11, ch. 2002-78; s. 2, ch. 2002-81; s. 3, ch. 2003-10; s. 1, ch. 2003-95; s. 2, ch. 2005-128; s. 108, ch. 2006-197; s. 

2, ch. 2006-306; s. 2, ch. 2008-88; s. 6, ch. 2010-113; ss. 3,4, ch. 2011-73; s. 2, ch. 2011-90; s. 26, ch. 2011-141; s. 

2, ch. 201 2-23. 

893.1 35Trafficking; mandatory sentences; suspension or reduction of sentences; 

conspiracy to engage in trafficking.— 

(1 )Except as authorized in this chapter or in chapter 499 and notwithstanding the provisions of 

s. 893.13: 

(a)Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, in excess of 25 pounds of 

cannabis, or 300 or more cannabis plants, commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall 

be known as "trafficking in cannabis," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. If the quantity of cannabis involved: 

1.Is in excess of 25 pounds, but less than 2,000 pounds, or is 300 or more cannabis plants, but 

not more than 2,000 cannabis plants, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum 

term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of $25,000. 

2.Is 2,000 pounds or more, but less than 10,000 pounds, or is 2,000 or more cannabis plants, 

but not more than 10,000 cannabis plants, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum 

term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of $50,000. 

3.Is 10,000 pounds or more, or is 10,000 or more cannabis plants, such person shall be 

sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of 

$200,000. 

For the purpose of this paragraph, a plant, including, but not limited to, a seedling or cutting, is 

a "cannabis plant" if it has some readily observable evidence of root formation, such as root hairs. 

To determine if a piece or part of a cannabis plant severed from the cannabis plant is itself a 

cannabis plant, the severed piece or part must have some readily observable evidence of root 

formation, such as root hairs. Callous tissue is not readily observable evidence of root formation. 

The viability and sex of a plant and the fact that the plant may or may not be a dead harvested 

plant are not relevant in determining if the plant is a "cannabis plant" or in the charging of an 

offense under this paragraph. Upon conviction, the court shall impose the longest term of 

imprisonment provided for in this paragraph. 

(b)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 28 grams or more of cocaine, as 

described ins. 893.03(2)(a)4., or of any mixture containing cocaine, but less than 150 kilograms of 

cocaine or any such mixture, commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in cocaine," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the 

quantity involved: 



a.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 400 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 400 grams or more, but less than 150 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, 

or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 50 kilograms or more of cocaine, as 

described in s. 893.03(2)(a)4., commits the first degree felony of trafficking in cocaine. A person 

who has been convicted of the first degree felony of trafficking in cocaine under this subparagraph 

shall be punished by life imprisonment and is ineligible for any form of discretionary early release 

except pardon or executive clemency or conditional medical release under s. 947.149. However, if 

the court determines that, in addition to committing any act specified in this paragraph: 

a.The person intentionally killed an individual or counseled, commanded, induced, procured, 

or caused the intentional killing of an individual and such killing was the result; or 

b.The person's conduct in committing that act led to a natural, though not inevitable, lethal 

resu It, 

such person commits the capital felony of trafficking in cocaine, punishable as provided in ss. 

775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be 

sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

3.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 300 kilograms or more of cocaine, as 

described in s. 893.03(2)(a)4., and who knows that the probable result of such importation would 

be the death of any person, commits capital importation of cocaine, a capital felony punishable as 

provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this 

paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(c)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 4 grams or more of any 

morphine, opium, oxycodone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, or any salt, derivative, isomer, or salt 

of an isomer thereof, including heroin, as described ins. 893.03(1)(b), (2)(a), (3)(c)3., or (3)(c)4., 

or 4 grams or more of any mixture containing any such substance, but less than 30 kilograms of 

such substance or mixture, commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in illegal drugs," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the 

quantity involved: 

a.Is 4 grams or more, but less than 14 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 



minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shalt be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 14 grams or more, but less than 28 grams, such person shalt be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 15 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 30 kilograms, such person shalt be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 25 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, 

or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 30 kilograms or more of any morphine, 

opium, oxycodone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, or any salt, derivative, isomer, or salt of an 

isomer thereof, including heroin, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(b), (2)(a), (3)(c)3., or (3)(c)4., or 30 

kilograms or more of any mixture containing any such substance, commits the first degree felony of 

trafficking in illegal drugs. A person who has been convicted of the first degree felony of trafficking 

in illegal drugs under this subparagraph shall be punished by life imprisonment and is ineligible for 

any form of discretionary early release except pardon or executive clemency or conditional medical 

release under s. 947.149. However, if the court determines that, in addition to committing any act 

specified in this paragraph: 

a.The person intentionally killed an individual or counseled, commanded, induced, procured, 

or caused the intentional killing of an individual and such killing was the result; or 

b.The person's conduct in committing that act led to a natural, though not inevitable, lethal 

resu It, 

such person commits the capital felony of trafficking in illegal drugs, punishable as provided in 

ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also 

be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

3.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 60 kilograms or more of any morphine, 

opium, oxycodone, hydrocodone, hydromorphone, or any salt, derivative, isomer, or salt of an 

isomer thereof, including heroin, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(b), (2)(a), (3)(c)3., or (3)(c)4., or 60 

kilograms or more of any mixture containing any such substance, and who knows that the probable 

result of such importation would be the death of any person, commits capital importation of illegal 

drugs, a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for 

a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided 

under subparagraph 1. 

(d)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 28 grams or more of 

phencyclidine or of any mixture containing phencyclidine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(b), commits 

a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in phencyclidine," 



in or s. the 

or such person a 

of and shall a fine 

or but less than such person shall 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of 

or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of years and pay a fine of 

person who knowingly brings into this state or more of or of 

any mixture containing as described in s. and who knows that the 

probable result of such importation would be the death of any person commits capital importation 

of a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person 

sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum 

fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

.Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, grams or more of 

methaqualone or of any mixture containing methaqualone, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), commits 

a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in methaqualone," 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 5 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $50,000. 

b.Is 5 kilograms or more, but less than 25 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 25 kilograms or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly brings into this state 50 kilograms or more of methaqualone or of 

any mixture containing methaqualone, as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), and who knows that the 

probable result of such importation would be the death of any person commits capital importation 

of methaqualone, a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person 

sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum 

fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(f)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 14 grams or more of 



amphetamine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(c)2., or methamphetamine, as described in s. 

893.03(2)(c)4., or of any mixture containing amphetamine or methamphetamine, or 

phenylacetone, phenylacetic acid, pseudoephedrine, or ephedrine in conjunction with other 

chemicals and equipment utilized in the manufacture of amphetamine or methamphetamine, 

commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in amphetamine," 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 14 grams or more, but less than 28 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 28 grams or more, but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 200 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 400 grams or more of 

amphetamine, as described in s. 893.03(2)(c)2., or methamphetamine, as described in s. 

893.03(2)(c)4., or of any mixture containing amphetamine or methamphetamine, or 

phenylacetone, phenylacetic acid, pseudoephedrine, or ephedrine in conjunction with other 

chemicals and equipment used in the manufacture of amphetamine or methamphetamine, and who 

knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation would be the death of any 

person commits capital manufacture or importation of amphetamine, a capital felony punishable as 

provided in 55. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this 

paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(g)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 4 grams or more of flunitrazepam 

or any mixture containing flunitrazepam as described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) commits a felony of the 

first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in flunitrazepam," punishable as provided 

in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 4 grams or more but less than 14 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 14 grams or more but less than 28 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 28 grams or more but less than 30 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 25 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 





(i)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 kilogram or more of gamma- 

butyrolactone (GBL), as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), or any mixture containing gamma- 

butyrolactone (GBL), commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in gamma-butyrolactone (GBL)," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 1 kilogram or more but less than 5 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $50,000. 

b.Is 5 kilograms or more but less than 10 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 10 kilograms or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into the state 150 kilograms or more of 

gamma-butyrolactone (GBL), as described ins. 893.03(1)(d), or any mixture containing gamma- 

butyrolactone (GBL), and who knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation 

would be the death of any person commits capital manufacture or importation of gamma- 

butyrolactone (GBL), a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any 

person sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the 

maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(j)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 kilogram or more of 1 ,4- 

Butanediol as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), or of any mixture containing 1 ,4-Butanediol, commits a 

felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as "trafficking in 1,4-Butanediol," 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 1 kilogram or more, but less than 5 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $50,000. 

b.Is 5 kilograms or more, but less than 10 kilograms, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 10 kilograms or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 150 kilograms or more of 

1 ,4-Butanediol as described in s. 893.03(1 )(d), or any mixture containing 1 ,4-Butanediol, and who 



knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation would be the death of any 

person commits capital manufacture or importation of 1 ,4-Butanediol, a capital felony punishable 

as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a capital felony under this 

paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(k)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 10 grams or more of any of the 

following substances described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (c): 

a.3,4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA); 

b.4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

c.4-Bromo-2 , 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine; 

d.2,5-Dimethoxyamphetamine; 

e.2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine (DOET); 

f. N-ethylamphetamine; 

g. N - Hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

h. 5-Methoxy-3 ,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

i.4-methoxyamphetamine; 

j .4-methoxymethamphetamine; 

k.4-Methyl-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

1.3 ,4-Methylenedioxy-N -ethylamphetamine; 

m .3 ,4-Methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

n.N,N-dimethylamphetamine; or 

o.3,4,5-Trimethoxyamphetamine, 

individually or in any combination of or any mixture containing any substance listed in sub- 

subparagraphs a.-o., commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in Phenethylamines," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

2.If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 10 grams or more but less than 200 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 200 grams or more, but less than 400 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a 

mandatory minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a 

fine of $100,000. 

c.Is 400 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $250,000. 

3.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 30 kilograms or more of any 

of the following substances described in s. 893.03(1 )(a) or (c): 



a.3,4-Methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA); 

b.4-Bromo-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

c.4-Bromo-2 , 5-dimethoxyphenethylamine; 

d.2,5-Dimethoxyamphetamine; 

e.2, 5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylamphetamine (DOET); 

f. N-ethylamphetamine; 

g. N - Hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

h. 5-Methoxy-3 ,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

i.4-methoxyamphetamine; 

j .4-methoxymethamphetamine; 

k.4-Methyl-2, 5-dimethoxyamphetamine; 

1.3 ,4-Methylenedioxy-N -ethylamphetamine; 

m .3 ,4-Methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

n.N,N-dimethylamphetamine; or 

o.3,4,5-Trimethoxyamphetamine, 

individually or in any combination of or any mixture containing any substance listed in sub- 

subparagraphs a.-o., and who knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation 

would be the death of any person commits capital manufacture or importation of Phenethylamines, 

a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person sentenced for a 

capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum fine provided 

under subparagraph 1. 

(1)1 .Any person who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this 

state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of, 1 gram or more of lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD) as described in s. 893.03(1 )(c), or of any mixture containing lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD), commits a felony of the first degree, which felony shall be known as 

"trafficking in lysergic acid diethylamide (LSD)," punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, 

or s. 775.084. If the quantity involved: 

a.Is 1 gram or more, but less than 5 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 3 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$50,000. 

b.Is 5 grams or more, but less than 7 grams, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment of 7 years, and the defendant shall be ordered to pay a fine of 

$100,000. 

c.Is 7 grams or more, such person shall be sentenced to a mandatory minimum term of 

imprisonment of 15 calendar years and pay a fine of $500,000. 

2.Any person who knowingly manufactures or brings into this state 7 grams or more of lysergic 



acid diethylamide (LSD) as described in s. 893.03(1 )(c), or any mixture containing lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD), and who knows that the probable result of such manufacture or importation 

would be the death of any person commits capital manufacture or importation of lysergic acid 

diethylamide (LSD), a capital felony punishable as provided in ss. 775.082 and 921.142. Any person 

sentenced for a capital felony under this paragraph shall also be sentenced to pay the maximum 

fine provided under subparagraph 1. 

(2)A person acts knowingly under subsection (1) if that person intends to sell, purchase, 

manufacture, deliver, or bring into this state, or to actually or constructively possess, any of the 

controlled substances listed in subsection (1), regardless of which controlled substance listed in 

subsection (1) is in fact sold, purchased, manufactured, delivered, or brought into this state, or 

actually or constructively possessed. 

(3)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 948.01, with respect to any person who is found to 

have violated this section, adjudication of guilt or imposition of sentence shall not be suspended, 

deferred, or withheld, nor shall such person be eligible for parole prior to serving the mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment prescribed by this section. A person sentenced to a mandatory 

minimum term of imprisonment under this section is not eligible for any form of discretionary early 

release, except pardon or executive clemency or conditional medical release under s. 947.149, 

prior to serving the mandatory minimum term of imprisonment. 

(4)The state attorney may move the sentencing court to reduce or suspend the sentence of 

any person who is convicted of a violation of this section and who provides substantial assistance in 

the identification, arrest, or conviction of any of that person's accomplices, accessories, 

coconspirators, or principals or of any other person engaged in trafficking in controlled substances. 

The arresting agency shall be given an opportunity to be heard in aggravation or mitigation in 

reference to any such motion. Upon good cause shown, the motion may be filed and heard in 

camera. The judge hearing the motion may reduce or suspend the sentence if the judge finds that 

the defendant rendered such substantial assistance. 

(5)Any person who agrees, conspires, combines, or confederates with another person to 

commit any act prohibited by subsection (1) commits a felony of the first degree and is punishable 

as if he or she had actually committed such prohibited act. Nothing in this subsection shall be 

construed to prohibit separate convictions and sentences for a violation of this subsection and any 

violation of subsection (1). 

(6)A mixture, as defined in s. 893.02, containing any controlled substance described in this 

section includes, but is not limited to, a solution or a dosage unit, including but not limited to, a 

pill or tablet, containing a controlled substance. For the purpose of clarifying legislative intent 

regarding the weighing of a mixture containing a controlled substance described in this section, the 

weight of the controlled substance is the total weight of the mixture, including the controlled 



substance and any other substance in the mixture. If there is more than one mixture containing the 

same controlled substance, the weight of the controlled substance is calculated by aggregating the 

total weight of each mixture. 

(7)For the purpose of further clarifying legislative intent, the Legislature finds that the 

opinion in Hayes v. State, 750 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1999) does not correctly construe legislative intent. 

The Legislature finds that the opinions in State v. Hayes, 720 So. 2d 1095 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998) and 

State v. Baxley, 684 So. 2d 831 (Fla. 5th DCA 1996) correctly construe legislative intent. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 79-1; s. 1, ch. 80-70; s. 2, ch. 80-353; s. 491, ch. 81-259; s. 1, ch. 82-2; s. 3, ch. 82-16; s. 53, 

ch. 83-21 5; s. 5, ch. 87-243; ss. 1, 4, ch. 89-281; s. 1, ch. 90-112; s. 3, ch. 93-92; s. 24, ch. 93-406; s. 15, ch. 95- 

184; s. 5, ch. 95-415; s. 54, ch. 96-388; s. 3, ch. 97-1; s. 1828, ch. 97-102; s. 23, ch. 97-194; s. 9, ch. 99-188; s. 4, 

ch. 2000-320; s. 2, ch. 2001 -55; S. 7, ch. 2001 -57; ss. 1, 2, 3, ch. 2002-212; s. 4, ch. 2003-10; s. 3, ch. 2005-128; s. 

7, ch. 2008-184; s. 5, ch. 2011-73; s. 3, ch. 2011-90. 

893.l35lOwnership, lease, rental, or possession for trafficking in or manufacturing a 

controlled substance.— 

(1 )A person may not own, lease, or rent any place, structure, or part thereof, trailer, or other 

conveyance with the knowledge that the place, structure, trailer, or conveyance will be used for 

the purpose of trafficking in a controlled substance, as provided in s. 893.135; for the sale of a 

controlled substance, as provided in s. 893.13; or for the manufacture of a controlled substance 

intended for sale or distribution to another. A person who violates this subsection commits a felony 

of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)A person may not knowingly be in actual or constructive possession of any place, structure, 

or part thereof, trailer, or other conveyance with the knowledge that the place, structure, or part 

thereof, trailer, or conveyance will be used for the purpose of trafficking in a controlled substance, 

as provided in s. 893.135; for the sale of a controlled substance, as provided in s. 893.13; or for the 

manufacture of a controlled substance intended for sale or distribution to another. A person who 

violates this subsection commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)A person who is in actual or constructive possession of a place, structure, trailer, or 

conveyance with the knowledge that the place, structure, trailer, or conveyance is being used to 

manufacture a controlled substance intended for sale or distribution to another and who knew or 

should have known that a minor is present or resides in the place, structure, trailer, or conveyance 

commits a felony of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084. 

(4)For the purposes of this section, proof of the possession of 25 or more cannabis plants 

constitutes prima facie evidence that the cannabis is intended for sale or distribution. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 91-118; s. 10, ch. 99-188; s. 22, ch. 2000-320; s. 1, ch. 2002-212; s. 14, ch. 2005-128; s. 2, ch. 



2008-184. 

893.l38Local administrative action to abate drug-related, prostitution-related, or stolen- 

property-related public nuisances and criminal gang activity.— 

(1 )It is the intent of this section to promote, protect, and improve the health, safety, and 

welfare of the citizens of the counties and municipalities of this state by authorizing the creation 

of administrative boards with authority to impose administrative fines and other noncriminal 

penalties in order to provide an equitable, expeditious, effective, and inexpensive method of 

enforcing ordinances in counties and municipalities under circumstances when a pending or 

repeated violation continues to exist. 

(2)Any place or premises that has been used: 

(a)On more than two occasions within a 6-month period, as the site of a violation of s. 796.07; 

(b)On more than two occasions within a 6-month period, as the site of the unlawful sale, 

delivery, manufacture, or cultivation of any controlled substance; 

(c)On one occasion as the site of the unlawful possession of a controlled substance, where 

such possession constitutes a felony and that has been previously used on more than one occasion 

as the site of the unlawful sale, delivery, manufacture, or cultivation of any controlled substance; 

(d)By a criminal gang for the purpose of conducting criminal gang activity as defined by s. 

874.03; or 

(e)On more than two occasions within a 6-month period, as the site of a violation of s. 812.019 

relating to dealing in stolen property 

may be declared to be a public nuisance, and such nuisance may be abated pursuant to the 

procedures provided in this section. 

(3)Any pain-management clinic, as described in s. 458.3265 or s. 459.0137, which has been 

used on more than two occasions within a 6-month period as the site of a violation of: 

(a)Section 784.011, s. 784.021, s. 784.03, or s. 784.045, relating to assault and battery; 

(b)Section 810.02, relating to burglary; 

(c)Section 812.014, relating to dealing in theft; 

(d)Section 812.131, relating to robbery by sudden snatching; or 

(e)Section 893.13, relating to the unlawful distribution of controlled substances, 

may be declared to be a public nuisance, and such nuisance may be abated pursuant to the 

procedures provided in this section. 

(4)Any county or municipality may, by ordinance, create an administrative board to hear 

complaints regarding the nuisances described in subsection (2). Any employee, officer, or resident 

of the county or municipality may bring a complaint before the board after giving not less than 3 

days' written notice of such complaint to the owner of the place or premises at his or her last 

known address. After a hearing in which the board may consider any evidence, including evidence 



of the general reputation of the place or premises, and at which the owner of the premises shall 

have an opportunity to present evidence in his or her defense, the board may declare the place or 

premises to be a public nuisance as described in subsection (2). 

(5)If the board declares a place or premises to be a public nuisance, it may enter an order 

requiring the owner of such place or premises to adopt such procedure as may be appropriate 

under the circumstances to abate any such nuisance or it may enter an order immediately 

prohibiting: 

(a)The maintaining of the nuisance; 

(b)The operating or maintaining of the place or premises, including the closure of the place or 

premises or any part thereof; or 

(c)The conduct, operation, or maintenance of any business or activity on the premises which is 

conducive to such nuisance. 

(6)An order entered under subsection (5) shall expire after 1 year or at such earlier time as is 

stated in the order. 

(7)An order entered under subsection (5) may be enforced pursuant to the procedures 

contained in s. 120.69. This subsection does not subject a municipality that creates a board under 

this section, or the board so created, to any other provision of chapter 120. 

(8)The board may bring a complaint under s. 60.05 seeking temporary and permanent 

injunctive relief against any nuisance described in subsection (2). 

(9)This section does not restrict the right of any person to proceed under s. 60.05 against any 

public nuisance. 

(10)As used in this section, the term "controlled substance" includes any substance sold in lieu 

of a controlled substance in violation of s. 817.563 or any imitation controlled substance defined in 

s. 817.564. 

(11 )The provisions of this section may be supplemented by a county or municipal ordinance. 

The ordinance may include, but is not limited to, provisions that establish additional penalties for 

public nuisances, including fines not to exceed $250 per day; provide for the payment of 

reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney fees associated with investigations of and hearings 

on public nuisances; provide for continuing jurisdiction for a period of 1 year over any place or 

premises that has been or is declared to be a public nuisance; establish penalties, including fines 

not to exceed $500 per day for recurring public nuisances; provide for the recording of orders on 

public nuisances so that notice must be given to subsequent purchasers, successors in interest, or 

assigns of the real property that is the subject of the order; provide that recorded orders on public 

nuisances may become liens against the real property that is the subject of the order; and provide 

for the foreclosure of property subject to a lien and the recovery of all costs, including reasonable 

attorney fees, associated with the recording of orders and foreclosure. No lien created pursuant to 



the provisions of this section may be foreclosed on real property which is a homestead under s. 4, 

Art. X of the State Constitution. Where a local government seeks to bring an administrative action, 

based on a stolen property nuisance, against a property owner operating an establishment where 

multiple tenants, on one site, conduct their own retail business, the property owner shall not be 

subject to a lien against his or her property or the prohibition of operation provision if the property 

owner evicts the business declared to be a nuisance within 90 days after notification by registered 

mail to the property owner of a second stolen property conviction of the tenant. The total fines 

imposed pursuant to the authority of this section shall not exceed $15,000. Nothing contained 

within this section prohibits a county or municipality from proceeding against a public nuisance by 

any other means. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 87-243; s. 2, ch. 90-207; s. 1, ch. 91-143; s. 6, ch. 93-227; s. 1, ch. 94-242; s. 42, ch. 96-388; 

s. 1829, ch. 97-102; s. 1, ch. 97-200; s. 2, ch. 98-395; s. 1, ch. 2000-111; s. 5, ch. 2001 -66; s. 24, ch. 2008-238; s. 

27, ch. 2011-141; s. 87, ch. 2012-5. 

893.145"Drug paraphernalia" defined.—The term "drug paraphernalia" means all 

equipment, products, and materials of any kind which are used, intended for use, or designed for 

use in planting, propagating, cultivating, growing, harvesting, manufacturing, compounding, 

converting, producing, processing, preparing, testing, analyzing, packaging, repackaging, storing, 

containing, concealing, transporting, injecting, ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing into 

the human body a controlled substance in violation of this chapter or s. 877.111. Drug 

paraphernalia is deemed to be contraband which shall be subject to civil forfeiture. The term 

includes, but is not limited to: 

(1 )Kits used, intended for use, or designed for use in the planting, propagating, cultivating, 

growing, or harvesting of any species of plant which is a controlled substance or from which a 

controlled substance can be derived. 

(2)Kits used, intended for use, or designed for use in manufacturing, compounding, 

converting, producing, processing, or preparing controlled substances. 

(3)Isomerization devices used, intended for use, or designed for use in increasing the potency 

of any species of plant which is a controlled substance. 

(4)Testing equipment used, intended for use, or designed for use in identifying, or in analyzing 

the strength, effectiveness, or purity of, controlled substances. 

(5)Scales and balances used, intended for use, or designed for use in weighing or measuring 

controlled substances. 

(6)Diluents and adulterants, such as quinine hydrochloride, mannitol, mannite, dextrose, and 

lactose, used, intended for use, or designed for use in cutting controlled substances. 

(7)Separation gins and sifters used, intended for use, or designed for use in removing twigs 

and seeds from, or in otherwise cleaning or refining, cannabis. 



(8)Blenders, bowls, containers, spoons, and mixing devices used, intended for use, or designed 

for use in compounding controlled substances. 

(9)Capsules, balloons, envelopes, and other containers used, intended for use, or designed for 

use in packaging small quantities of controlled substances. 

(1O)Containers and other objects used, intended for use, or designed for use in storing, 

concealing, or transporting controlled substances. 

(11 )Hypodermic syringes, needles, and other objects used, intended for use, or designed for 

use in parenterally injecting controlled substances into the human body. 

(12)Objects used, intended for use, or designed for use in ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise 

introducing cannabis, cocaine, hashish, hashish oil, or nitrous oxide into the human body, such as: 

(a)Metal, wooden, acrylic, glass, stone, plastic, or ceramic pipes, with or without screens, 

permanent screens, hashish heads, or punctured metal bowls. 

(b)Water pipes. 

(c)Carburetion tubes and devices. 

(d)Smoking and carburetion masks. 

(e)Roach clips: meaning objects used to hold burning material, such as a cannabis cigarette, 

that has become too small or too short to be held in the hand. 

(f)Miniature cocaine spoons, and cocaine vials. 

(g)Chamber pipes. 

(h)Carburetor pipes. 

(i)Electric pipes. 

(j)Air-driven pipes. 

(k)Chillums. 

(l)Bongs. 

(m)Ice pipes or chillers. 

(n)A cartridge or canister, which means a small metal device used to contain nitrous oxide. 

(o)A charger, sometimes referred to as a "cracker," which means a small metal or plastic 

device that contains an interior pin that may be used to expel nitrous oxide from a cartridge or 

container. 

(p)A charging bottle, which means a device that may be used to expel nitrous oxide from a 

cartridge or canister. 

(q)A whip-it, which means a device that may be used to expel nitrous oxide. 

(r)A tank. 

(s)A balloon. 

(t)A hose or tube. 

(u)A 2-liter-type soda bottle. 



(v)Duct tape. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 80-30; s. 6, ch. 2000-320; s. 15, ch. 2000-360. 

893.l46Determination of paraphernalia.—In determining whether an object is drug 

paraphernalia, a court or other authority or jury shall consider, in addition to all other logically 

relevant factors, the following: 

(1 )Statements by an owner or by anyone in control of the object concerning its use. 

(2)The proximity of the object, in time and space, to a direct violation of this act. 

(3)The proximity of the object to controlled substances. 

(4)The existence of any residue of controlled substances on the object. 

(5)Direct or circumstantial evidence of the intent of an owner, or of anyone in control of the 

object, to deliver it to persons who he or she knows, or should reasonably know, intend to use the 

object to facilitate a violation of this act. The innocence of an owner, or of anyone in control of 

the object, as to a direct violation of this act shall not prevent a finding that the object is intended 

for use, or designed for use, as drug paraphernalia. 

(6)Instructions, oral or written, provided with the object concerning its use. 

(7)Descriptive materials accompanying the object which explain or depict its use. 

(8)Any advertising concerning its use. 

(9)The manner in which the object is displayed for sale. 

(1O)Whether the owner, or anyone in control of the object, is a legitimate supplier of like or 

related items to the community, such as a licensed distributor of or dealer in tobacco products. 

(11 )Direct or circumstantial evidence of the ratio of sales of the object or objects to the total 

sales of the business enterprise. 

(12)The existence and scope of legitimate uses for the object in the community. 

(13)Expert testimony concerning its use. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 80-30; s. 1445, ch. 97-102. 

893.l47Use, possession, manufacture, delivery, transportation, or advertisement of drug 

paraphernalia. 

(1 )USE OR POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful for any person to use, or to 

possess with intent to use, drug paraphernalia: 

(a)To plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, 

process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, repack, store, contain, or conceal a controlled substance in 

violation of this chapter; or 

(b)To inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise introduce into the human body a controlled 

substance in violation of this chapter. 

Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 



(2)MANUFACTURE OR DELIVERY OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful for any person to 

deliver, possess with intent to deliver, or manufacture with intent to deliver drug paraphernalia, 

knowing, or under circumstances where one reasonably should know, that it will be used: 

(a)To plant, propagate, cultivate, grow, harvest, manufacture, compound, convert, produce, 

process, prepare, test, analyze, pack, repack, store, contain, or conceal a controlled substance in 

violation of this act; or 

(b)To inject, ingest, inhale, or otherwise introduce into the human body a controlled 

substance in violation of this act. 

Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)DELIVERY OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA TO A MINOR.— 

(a)Any person 18 years of age or over who violates subsection (2) by delivering drug 

paraphernalia to a person under 18 years of age is guilty of a felony of the second degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)It is unlawful for any person to sell or otherwise deliver hypodermic syringes, needles, or 

other objects which may be used, are intended for use, or are designed for use in parenterally 

injecting substances into the human body to any person under 18 years of age, except that 

hypodermic syringes, needles, or other such objects may be lawfully dispensed to a person under 

18 years of age by a licensed practitioner, parent, or legal guardian or by a pharmacist pursuant to 

a valid prescription for same. Any person who violates the provisions of this paragraph is guilty of a 

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(4)TRANSPORTATION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful to use, possess with the intent 

to use, or manufacture with the intent to use drug paraphernalia, knowing or under circumstances 

in which one reasonably should know that it will be used to transport: 

(a)A controlled substance in violation of this chapter; or 

(b)Contraband as defined in s. 932.701 (2)(a)1. 

Any person who violates this subsection commits a felony of the third degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(5)ADVERTISEMENT OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA.—It is unlawful for any person to place in any 

newspaper, magazine, handbill, or other publication any advertisement, knowing, or under 

circumstances where one reasonably should know, that the purpose of the advertisement, in whole 

or in part, is to promote the sale of objects designed or intended for use as drug paraphernalia. 

Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable 

as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 80-30; s. 1, ch. 81-149; s. 54, ch. 83-215; s. 1, ch. 85-8; s. 223, ch. 91 -224; s. 16, ch. 2000-360. 

893.1 49Unlawfu I possession of listed chemical.— 



(1 )It is unlawful for any person to knowingly or intentionally: 

(a)Possess a listed chemical with the intent to unlawfully manufacture a controlled substance; 

(b)Possess or distribute a listed chemical knowing, or having reasonable cause to believe, that 

the listed chemical will be used to unlawfully manufacture a controlled substance. 

(2)Any person who violates this section commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)This section does not apply to a public employee or private contractor authorized to clean 

up or dispose of hazardous waste or toxic substances resulting from the prohibited activities listed 

ins. 893.13(1)(g). 

(4)Any damages arising out of the unlawful possession of, storage of, or tampering with a 

listed chemical, as defined in s. 893.033, shall be the sole responsibility of the person or persons 

unlawfully possessing, storing, or tampering with the listed chemical. In no case shall liability for 

damages arising out of the unlawful possession of, storage of, or tampering with a listed chemical 

extend to the lawful owner, installer, maintainer, designer, manufacturer, possessor, or seller of 

the listed chemical, unless such damages arise out of the acts or omissions of the owner, installer, 

maintainer, designer, manufacturer, possessor, or seller which constitute negligent misconduct or 

failure to abide by the laws regarding the possession or storage of a listed chemical. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 91 -279; s. 3, ch. 2003-15; s. 4, ch. 2005-128. 

893.l495Retail sale of ephedrine and related compounds.— 

(1 )For purposes of this section, the term "ephedrine or related compounds" means ephedrine, 

pseudoephedrine, phenylpropanolamine, or any of their salts, optical isomers, or salts of optical 

isomers. 

(2)A person may not knowingly obtain or deliver to an individual in any retail over-the-counter 

sale any nonprescription compound, mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related 

compounds in excess of the following amounts: 

(a)In any single day, any number of packages that contain a total of 3.6 grams of ephedrine or 

related compounds; 

(b)In any single retail, over-the-counter sale, three packages, regardless of weight, containing 

ephedrine or related compounds; or 

(c)In any 30-day period, in any number of retail, over-the-counter sales, a total of 9 grams or 

more of ephedrine or related compounds. 

(3)A person may not knowingly display and offer for retail sale any nonprescription compound, 

mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related compounds other than behind a checkout 

counter where the public is not permitted or other such location that is not otherwise accessible to 

the general public. 

(4)A person who is the owner or primary operator of a retail outlet where any nonprescription 



compound, mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related compounds is available for sale 

may not knowingly allow an employee to engage in the retail sale of such compound, mixture, or 

preparation unless the employee has completed an employee training program that shall include, 

at a minimum, basic instruction on state and federal regulations relating to the sale and 

distribution of such compounds, mixtures, or preparations. 

(5)(a)Any person purchasing, receiving, or otherwise acquiring any nonprescription compound, 

mixture, or preparation containing any detectable quantity of ephedrine or related compounds 

must: 

1 . Be at least 18 years of age. 

2.Produce a government-issued photo identification showing his or her name, date of birth, 

address, and photo identification number or an alternative form of identification acceptable under 

federal regulation 8 C.F.R. s. 274a.2(b)(1)(v)(A) and (B). 

3.Sign his or her name on a record of the purchase, either on paper or on an electronic 

signature capture device. 

(b)The Department of Law Enforcement shall approve an electronic recordkeeping system for 

the purpose of recording and monitoring the real-time purchase of products containing ephedrine 

or related compounds and for the purpose of monitoring this information in order to prevent or 

investigate illegal purchases of these products. The approved electronic recordkeeping system shall 

be provided to a pharmacy or retailer without any additional cost or expense. A pharmacy or 

retailer may request an exemption from electronic reporting from the Department of Law 

Enforcement if the pharmacy or retailer lacks the technology to access the electronic 

recordkeeping system and such pharmacy or retailer maintains a sales volume of less than 72 grams 

of ephedrine or related compounds in a 30-day period. The electronic recordkeeping system shall 

record the following: 

1 .The date and time of the transaction. 

2.The name, date of birth, address, and photo identification number of the purchaser, as well 

as the type of identification and the government of issuance. 

3.The number of packages purchased, the total grams per package, and the name of the 

compound, mixture, or preparation containing ephedrine or related compounds. 

4.The signature of the purchaser, or a unique number relating the transaction to a paper 

signature maintained at the retail premises. 

(c)The electronic recordkeeping system shall provide for: 

1 .Real-time tracking of nonprescription over-the-counter sales under this section. 

2.The blocking of nonprescription over-the-counter sales in excess of those allowed by the 

laws of this state or federal law. 

(6)A nonprescription compound, mixture, or preparation containing any quantity of ephedrine 



or related compounds may not be sold over the counter unless reported to an electronic 

recordkeeping system approved by the Department of Law Enforcement. This subsection does not 

apply if the pharmacy or retailer has received an exemption from the Department of Law 

Enforcement under paragraph (5 )(b). 

(7)Prior to completing a transaction, a pharmacy or retailer distributing products containing 

ephedrine or related compounds to consumers in this state shall submit all required data into an 

electronic recordkeeping system approved by the Department of Law Enforcement at the point of 

sale or through an interface with the electronic recordkeeping system, unless granted an 

exemption by the Department of Law Enforcement pursuant to paragraph (5)(b). 

(8)The data submitted to the electronic recordkeeping system must be retained within the 

system for no less than 2 years following the date of entry. 

(9)The requirements of this section relating to the marketing, sale, or distribution of products 

containing ephedrine or related compounds supersede any local ordinance or regulation passed by a 

county, municipality, or other local governmental authority. 

(10)This section does not apply to: 

(a)Licensed manufacturers manufacturing and lawfully distributing products in the channels of 

commerce. 

(b)Wholesalers lawfully distributing products in the channels of commerce. 

(c)Health care facilities licensed under chapter 395. 

(d)Licensed long-term care facilities. 

(e)Government-operated health departments. 

(f)Physicians' offices. 

(g)Publicly operated prisons, jails, or juvenile correctional facilities or private adult or 

juvenile correctional facilities under contract with the state. 

(h)Public or private educational institutions maintaining health care programs. 

(i)Government-operated or industry-operated medical facilities serving employees of the 

government or industry operating them. 

(11 )Any individual who violates subsection (2), subsection (3), or subsection (4) commits: 

(a)For a first offense, a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.083. 

(b)For a second offense, a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(c)For a third or subsequent offense, a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 

775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(12)Information contained within the electronic recordkeeping system shall be disclosed in a 

manner authorized by state or federal law. Any retailer or entity that collects information on 



behalf of a retailer as required by the Combat Methamphetamine Epidemic Act of 2005 and this 

section may not access or use that information, except for law enforcement purposes pursuant to 

state or federal law or to facilitate a product recall for public health and safety. 

(13)A person who sells any product containing ephedrine or related compounds who in good 

faith releases information under this section to federal, state, or local law enforcement officers, or 

any person acting on behalf of such an officer, is immune from civil liability for the release unless 

the release constitutes gross negligence or intentional, wanton, or willful misconduct. 

(14)The Department of Law Enforcement shall contract or enter into a memorandum of 

understanding, as applicable, with a private third-party administrator to implement the electronic 

recordkeeping system required by this section. 

(15)The Department of Law Enforcement shall adopt rules necessary to implement this 

section. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 2005-128; S. 1, ch. 2010-191. 

893.l5Rehabilitation.—Any person who violates s. 893.13(6)(a) or (b) relating to possession 

may, in the discretion of the trial judge, be required to participate in a substance abuse services 

program approved or regulated by the Department of Children and Family Services pursuant to the 

provisions of chapter 397, provided the director of such program approves the placement of the 

defendant in such program. Such required participation shall be imposed in addition to any penalty 

or probation otherwise prescribed by law. However, the total time of such penalty, probation, and 

program participation shall not exceed the maximum length of sentence possible for the offense. 

History.—s. 15, ch. 73-331; s. 46, ch. 91-110; s. 40, ch. 93-39; s. 3, ch. 94-107; s. 39, ch. 97-194; s. 304, ch. 99-8. 

893.l65County alcohol and other drug abuse treatment or education trust funds.— 

(1 )Counties in which there is established or in existence a comprehensive alcohol and other 

drug abuse treatment or education program which meets the standards for qualification of such 

programs by the Department of Children and Family Services are authorized to establish a County 

Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund for the purpose of receiving the assessments collected 

pursuant to s. 938.23 and disbursing assistance grants on an annual basis to such alcohol and other 

drug abuse treatment or education program. 

(2)Assessments collected by the clerks of court pursuant to s. 938.23 shall be remitted to the 

board of county commissioners of the county in which the indictment was found or the prosecution 

commenced for payment into the County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund. The county 

commissioners shall require a full report from all clerks of county courts and clerks of circuit courts 

once each month of the amount of assessments imposed by their courts. 

(3)(a)No county shall receive assessments collected pursuant to s. 938.23 in an amount 

exceeding that county's jurisdictional share as described in subsection (2). 

(b)Assessments collected by clerks of circuit courts having more than one county in the 



circuit, for any county in the circuit which does not have a County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse 

Trust Fund, shall be remitted to the Department of Children and Family Services, in accordance 

with administrative rules adopted, for deposit into the department's Grants and Donations Trust 

Fund for distribution pursuant to the guidelines and priorities developed by the department. 

(4)No assessments shall be remitted to a county until the board of county commissioners has 

submitted documentation to the court substantiating the establishment of its County Alcohol and 

Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund. 

(5)If the board of county commissioners chooses to establish a County Alcohol and Other Drug 

Abuse Trust Fund, the board shall be responsible for the establishment of such fund and its 

implementation, administration, supervision, and evaluation. 

(6)In order to receive assistance grants from the County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust 

Fund, county alcohol and other drug abuse prevention, treatment, or education programs shall be 

designated by the board of county commissioners as the chosen program recipients. Designations 

shall be made annually, based on success of the programs. 

(7)An alcohol and other drug abuse treatment or education program recipient shall, in seeking 

assistance grants from the County Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund, provide the board of 

county commissioners with detailed financial information and requests for expenditures. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 88-381; s. 3, ch. 93-194; s. 37, ch. 97-271; S. 305, ch. 99-8; s. 5, ch. 2009-47. 

893.20Continuing criminal enterprise.— 

(1 )Any person who commits three or more felonies under this chapter in concert with five or 

more other persons with respect to whom such person occupies a position of organizer, a 

supervisory position, or any other position of management and who obtains substantial assets or 

resources from these acts is guilty of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise. 

(2)A person who commits the offense of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise is guilty 

of a life felony, punishable pursuant to the Criminal Punishment Code and by a fine of $500,000. 

(3)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 948.01, with respect to any person who is found to 

have violated this section, adjudication of guilt or imposition of sentence may not be suspended, 

deferred, or withheld. 

(4)This section does not prohibit separate convictions and sentences for violation of this 

section and for felony violations of this chapter. 

(5)This section must be interpreted in concert with its federal analog, 21 U.S.C. s. 848. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 89-145; s. 25, ch. 93-406; s. 24, ch. 97-194. 

893.21 Drug-related overdoses; medical assistance; immunity from prosecution.— 

(1 )A person acting in good faith who seeks medical assistance for an individual experiencing a 

drug-related overdose may not be charged, prosecuted, or penalized pursuant to this chapter for 

possession of a controlled substance if the evidence for possession of a controlled substance was 



obtained as a result of the person's seeking medical assistance. 

(2)A person who experiences a drug-related overdose and is in need of medical assistance may 

not be charged, prosecuted, or penalized pursuant to this chapter for possession of a controlled 

substance if the evidence for possession of a controlled substance was obtained as a result of the 

overdose and the need for medical assistance. 

(3)Protection in this section from prosecution for possession offenses under this chapter may 

not be grounds for suppression of evidence in other criminal prosecutions. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2012-36 



Title XXXII 
REGULATION OF PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS 

CHAPTER 456 

HEALTH PROFESSIONS AND OCCUPATIONS: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

456.001 Definitions. 

456.002 Applicability. 

456.003 Legislative intent; requirements. 

456.004 Department; powers and duties. 

456.005 Long-range policy planning. 

456.006 Contacting boards through department. 

456.007 Board members. 

456.008 Accountability and liability of board members. 

456.009 Legal and investigative services. 

456.011 Boards; organization; meetings; compensation and travel expenses. 

456.012 Board rules; final agency action; challenges. 

456.013 Department; general licensing provisions. 

456.0135 General background screening provisions. 

456.014 Public inspection of information required from applicants; exceptions; examination 

hearing. 

456.015 Limited licenses. 

456.016 Use of professional testing services. 

456.017 Examinations. 

456.018 Penalty for theft or reproduction of an examination. 

456.019 Restriction on requirement of citizenship. 

456.021 Qualification of immigrants for examination to practice a licensed profession or 

occupation. 

456.022 Foreign-trained professionals; special examination and license provisions. 

456.023 Exemption for certain out-of-state or foreign professionals; limited practice permitted. 

456.024 Members of Armed Forces in good standing with administrative boards or the department; 

spouses. 

456.025 Fees; receipts; disposition. 

456.026 Annual report concerning finances, administrative complaints, disciplinary actions, and 

recommendations. 

456.027 Education; accreditation. 

456.028 Consultation with postsecondary education boards prior to adoption of changes to training 

requirements. 

456.029 Education; substituting demonstration of competency for clock-hour requirements. 





456.0635 Health care fraud; disqualification for license, certificate, or registration. 

456.065 Unlicensed practice of a health care profession; intent; cease and desist notice; penalties; 

enforcement; citations; fees; allocation and disposition of moneys collected. 

456.066 Prosecution of criminal violations. 

456.067 Penalty for giving false information. 

456.068 Toll-free telephone number for reporting of complaints. 

456.069 Authority to inspect. 

456.071 Power to administer oaths, take depositions, and issue subpoenas. 

456.072 Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement. 

456.0721 Practitioners in default on student loan or scholarship obligations; investigation; report. 

456.073 Disciplinary proceedings. 

456.074 Certain health care practitioners; immediate suspension of license. 

456.075 Criminal proceedings against licensees; appearances by department representatives. 

456.076 Treatment programs for impaired practitioners. 

456.077 Authority to issue citations. 

456.078 Mediation. 

456.079 Disciplinary guidelines. 

456.081 Publication of information. 

456.082 Disclosure of confidential information. 

456.36 Health care professionals; exemption from disqualification from employment or 

contracting. 

456.38 Practitioner registry for disasters and emergencies. 

456.41 Complementary or alternative health care treatments. 

456.42 Written prescriptions for medicinal drugs. 

456.43 Electronic prescribing for medicinal drugs. 

456.44 Controlled substance prescribing. 

456.50 Repeated medical malpractice. 

45 6.001 Definitions.—As used in this chapter, the term: 

(1 )"Board" means any board or commission, or other statutorily created entity to the extent such 

entity is authorized to exercise regulatory or rulemaking functions, within the department, except 

that, for ss. 456.003-456.01 8, 456.022, 456.023, 456.025-456.034, and 456.039-456.082, "board" 

means only a board, or other statutorily created entity to the extent such entity is authorized to 

exercise regulatory or rulemaking functions, within the Division of Medical Quality Assurance. 

(2)"Consumer member" means a person appointed to serve on a specific board or who has served 

on a specific board, who is not, and never has been, a member or practitioner of the profession, or of 

any closely related profession, regulated by such board. 



(3)"Department" means the Department of Health. 

(4)"Health care practitioner" means any person licensed under chapter 457; chapter 458; chapter 

459; chapter 460; chapter 461; chapter 462; chapter 463; chapter 464; chapter 465; chapter 466; 

chapter 467; part I, part II, part III, part V, part X, part XIII, or part XIV of chapter 468; chapter 478; 

chapter 480; part III or part IV of chapter 483; chapter 484; chapter 486; chapter 490; or chapter 491. 

(5)"License" means any permit, registration, certificate, or license, including a provisional license, 

issued by the department. 

(6)"Licensee" means any person or entity issued a permit, registration, certificate, or license, 

including a provisional license, by the department. 

(7)"Profession" means any activity, occupation, profession, or vocation regulated by the 

department in the Division of Medical Quality Assurance. 

History.—s. 33, ch. 97-261; s. 72, ch. 99-397; s. 36, ch. 2000-160; s. 2, ch. 2002-199. 

Note.—Former s. 455.501. 

456.O02Applicability.—This chapter applies only to the regulation by the department of 

professions. 

History.—s. 34, ch. 97-261; s. 37, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.504. 

456.Oo3Legislative intent; requirements.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that persons desiring to engage in any lawful profession 

regulated by the department shall be entitled to do so as a matter of right if otherwise qualified. 

(2)The Legislature further believes that such professions shall be regulated only for the 

preservation of the health, safety, and welfare of the public under the police powers of the state. Such 

professions shall be regulated when: 

(a)Their unregulated practice can harm or endanger the health, safety, and welfare of the public, 

and when the potential for such harm is recognizable and clearly outweighs any anticompetitive impact 

which may result from regulation. 

(b)The public is not effectively protected by other means, including, but not limited to, other 

state statutes, local ordinances, or federal legislation. 

(c)Less restrictive means of regulation are not available. 

(3)It is further legislative intent that the use of the term "profession" with respect to those 

activities licensed and regulated by the department shall not be deemed to mean that such activities 

are not occupations for other purposes in state or federal law. 

(4)(a)Neither the department nor any board may create unreasonably restrictive and extraordinary 

standards that deter qualified persons from entering the various professions. Neither the department 

nor any board may take any action that tends to create or maintain an economic condition that 

unreasonably restricts competition, except as specifically provided by law. 



(b)Neither the department nor any board may create a regulation that has an unreasonable effect 

on job creation or job retention in the state or that places unreasonable restrictions on the ability of 

individuals who seek to practice or who are practicing a profession or occupation to find employment. 

(c)The Legislature shall evaluate proposals to increase the regulation of regulated professions or 

occupations to determine the effect of increased regulation on job creation or retention and 

employment opportunities. 

(5)Policies adopted by the department shall ensure that all expenditures are made in the most 

cost-effective manner to maximize competition, minimize licensure costs, and maximize public access 

to meetings conducted for the purpose of professional regulation. The long-range planning function of 

the department shall be implemented to facilitate effective operations and to eliminate inefficiencies. 

(6)Unless expressly and specifically granted in statute, the duties conferred on the boards do not 

include the enlargement, modification, or contravention of the lawful scope of practice of the 

profession regulated by the boards. This subsection shall not prohibit the boards, or the department 

when there is no board, from taking disciplinary action or issuing a declaratory statement. 

History.—s. 38, ch. 97-261; s. 135, ch. 99-251; s. 38, ch. 2000-160; s. 57, ch. 2001 -277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.517. 

456.OO4Department; powers and duties.—The department, for the professions under its 

jurisdiction, shall: 

(1 )Adopt rules establishing a procedure for the biennial renewal of licenses; however, the 

department may issue up to a 4-year license to selected licensees notwithstanding any other provisions 

of law to the contrary. The rules shall specify the expiration dates of licenses and the process for 

tracking compliance with continuing education requirements, financial responsibility requirements, and 

any other conditions of renewal set forth in statute or rule. Fees for such renewal shall not exceed the 

fee caps for individual professions on an annualized basis as authorized by law. 

(2)Appoint the executive director of each board, subject to the approval of the board. 

(3)Submit an annual budget to the Legislature at a time and in the manner provided by law. 

(4)Develop a training program for persons newly appointed to membership on any board. The 

program shall familiarize such persons with the substantive and procedural laws and rules and fiscal 

information relating to the regulation of the appropriate profession and with the structure of the 

department. 

(5)Adopt rules pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to implement the provisions of this chapter. 

(6)Establish by rules procedures by which the department shall use the expert or technical advice 

of the appropriate board for the purposes of investigation, inspection, evaluation of applications, other 

duties of the department, or any other areas the department may deem appropriate. 

(7)Require all proceedings of any board or panel thereof and all formal or informal proceedings 

conducted by the department, an administrative law judge, or a hearing officer with respect to 



licensing or discipline to be electronically recorded in a manner sufficient to assure the accurate 

transcription of all matters so recorded. 

(8)Select only those investigators, or consultants who undertake investigations, who meet criteria 

established with the advice of the respective boards. 

(9)Work cooperatively with the Department of Revenue to establish an automated method for 

periodically disclosing information relating to current licensees to the Department of Revenue, the 

state's Title IV-D agency. The purpose of this subsection is to promote the public policy of this state 

relating to child support as established in s. 409.2551. The department shall, when directed by the 

court or the Department of Revenue pursuant to s. 409.2598, suspend or deny the license of any 

licensee found not to be in compliance with a support order, a subpoena, an order to show cause, or a 

written agreement with the Department of Revenue. The department shall issue or reinstate the 

license without additional charge to the licensee when notified by the court or the Department of 

Revenue that the licensee has complied with the terms of the support order. The department is not 

liable for any license denial or suspension resulting from the discharge of its duties under this 

subsection. 

(10)Set an examination fee that includes all costs to develop, purchase, validate, administer, and 

defend the examination and is an amount certain to cover all administrative costs plus the actual per- 

applicant cost of the examination. 

(11 )Work cooperatively with the Agency for Health Care Administration and the judicial system to 

recover Medicaid overpayments by the Medicaid program. The department shall investigate and 

prosecute health care practitioners who have not remitted amounts owed to the state for an 

overpayment from the Medicaid program pursuant to a final order, judgment, or stipulation or 

settlement. 

History.—s. 39, ch. 97-261; s. 118, ch. 98-200; s. 74, ch. 99-397; s. 39, ch. 2000-160; s. 52, ch. 2001-158; s. 5, ch. 

2001 -277; s. 6, ch. 2008-92; s. 21, ch. 2009-223. 

Note.—Former s. 455.521. 

456.OO5Long-range policy planning.—To facilitate efficient and cost-effective regulation, the 

department and the board, if appropriate, shall develop and implement a long-range policy planning 

and monitoring process that includes recommendations specific to each profession. The process shall 

include estimates of revenues, expenditures, cash balances, and performance statistics for each 

profession. The period covered may not be less than 5 years. The department, with input from the 

boards and licensees, shall develop and adopt the long-range plan. The department shall monitor 

compliance with the plan and, with input from the boards and licensees, shall annually update the 

plans. The department shall provide concise management reports to the boards quarterly. As part of 

the review process, the department shall evaluate: 

(1 )Whether the department, including the boards and the various functions performed by the 



department, is operating efficiently and effectively and if there is a need for a board or council to 

assist in cost-effective regulation. 

(2)How and why the various professions are regulated. 

(3)Whether there is a need to continue regulation, and to what degree. 

(4)Whether or not consumer protection is adequate, and how it can be improved. 

(5)Whether there is consistency between the various practice acts. 

(6)Whether unlicensed activity is adequately enforced. 

The plans shall include conclusions and recommendations on these and other issues as appropriate. 

History.—s. 40, ch. 97-261; s. 40, ch. 2000-160; s. 61, ch. 2008-6; s. 148, ch. 2010-102. 

Note.—Former s. 455.524. 

456.OO6Contacting boards through department.—Each board under the jurisdiction of the 

department may be contacted through the headquarters of the department in the City of Tallahassee. 

History.—s. 41, ch. 97-261; s. 40, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.527. 

456.OO7Board members.—Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, any person who 

otherwise meets the requirements of law for board membership and who is connected in any way with 

any medical college, dental college, or community college may be appointed to any board so long as 

that connection does not result in a relationship wherein such college represents the person's principal 

source of income. However, this section shall not apply to the physicians required by s. 458.307(2) to 

be on the faculty of a medical school in this state or on the full-time staff of a teaching hospital in this 

state. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 84-161; s. 1, ch. 84-271; s. 3, ch. 88-392; s. 42, ch. 97-261; s. 17, ch. 97-264; s. 40, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.206; s. 455.531. 

456.OO8Accountability and liability of board members.— 

(1 )Each board member shall be accountable to the Governor for the proper performance of duties 

as a member of the board. The Governor shall investigate any legally sufficient complaint or 

unfavorable written report received by the Governor or by the department or a board concerning the 

actions of the board or its individual members. The Governor may suspend from office any board 

member for malfeasance, misfeasance, neglect of duty, drunkenness, incompetence, permanent 

inability to perform his or her official duties, or commission of a felony. 

(2)Each board member and each former board member serving on a probable cause panel shall be 

exempt from civil liability for any act or omission when acting in the member's official capacity, and 

the department shall defend any such member in any action against any board or member of a board 

arising from any such act or omission. In addition, the department may defend the member's company 

or business in any action against the company or business if the department determines that the 



actions from which the suit arises are actions taken by the member in the member's official capacity 

and were not beyond the member's statutory authority. In providing such defense, the department may 

employ or utilize the legal services of the Department of Legal Affairs or outside counsel retained 

pursuant to s. 287.059. Fees and costs of providing legal services provided under this subsection shall 

be paid from a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter, subject to the provisions 

of s. 456.025. 

History.—s. 45, ch. 97-261; s. 21, ch. 99-7; s. 153, ch. 99-251; s. 41, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.541. 

456.OO9Legal and investigative services.— 

(1 )The department shall provide board counsel for boards within the department by contracting 

with the Department of Legal Affairs, by retaining private counsel pursuant to s. 287.059, or by 

providing department staff counsel. The primary responsibility of board counsel shall be to represent 

the interests of the citizens of the state. A board shall provide for the periodic review and evaluation 

of the services provided by its board counsel. Fees and costs of such counsel shall be paid from a trust 

fund used by the department to implement this chapter, subject to the provisions of s. 456.025. All 

contracts for independent counsel shall provide for periodic review and evaluation by the board and 

the department of services provided. 

(2)The department may employ or use the legal services of outside counsel and the investigative 

services of outside personnel. However, no attorney employed or utilized by the department shall 

prosecute a matter and provide legal services to the board with respect to the same matter. 

(3)Any person retained by the department under contract to review materials, make site visits, or 

provide expert testimony regarding any complaint or application filed with the department relating to 

a profession under the jurisdiction of the department shall be considered an agent of the department 

in determining the state insurance coverage and sovereign immunity protection applicability of ss. 

284.31 and 768.28. 

History.—s. 60, ch. 97-261; s. 154, ch. 99-251; s. 42, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.594. 

456.011 Boards; organization; meetings; compensation and travel expenses.— 

(1 )Each board within the department shall comply with the provisions of this chapter. 

(2)The board shall annually elect from among its number a chairperson and vice chairperson. 

(3)The board shall meet at least once annually and may meet as often as is necessary. Meetings 

shall be conducted through teleconferencing or other technological means, unless disciplinary hearings 

involving standard of care, sexual misconduct, fraud, impairment, or felony convictions; licensure 

denial hearings; or controversial rule hearings are being conducted; or unless otherwise approved in 

advance of the meeting by the director of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance. The chairperson or 

a quorum of the board shall have the authority to call meetings, except as provided above relating to 



in-person meetings. A quorum shall be necessary for the conduct of official business by the board or 

any committee thereof. Unless otherwise provided by law, 51 percent or more of the appointed 

members of the board or any committee, when applicable, shall constitute a quorum. The membership 

of committees of the board, except as otherwise authorized pursuant to this chapter or the applicable 

practice act, shall be composed of currently appointed members of the board. The vote of a majority 

of the members of the quorum shall be necessary for any official action by the board or committee. 

Three consecutive unexcused absences or absences constituting 50 percent or more of the board's 

meetings within any 12-month period shall cause the board membership of the member in question to 

become void, and the position shall be considered vacant. The board, or the department when there is 

no board, shall, by rule, define unexcused absences. 

(4)Unless otherwise provided by law, a board member or former board member serving on a 

probable cause panel shall be compensated $50 for each day in attendance at an official meeting of 

the board and for each day of participation in any other business involving the board. Each board shall 

adopt rules defining the phrase "other business involving the board," but the phrase may not routinely 

be defined to include telephone conference calls that last less than 4 hours. A board member also shall 

be entitled to reimbursement for expenses pursuant to s. 112.061. Travel out of state shall require the 

prior approval of the State Surgeon General. 

(5)When two or more boards have differences between them, the boards may elect to, or the State 

Surgeon General may request that the boards, establish a special committee to settle those 

differences. The special committee shall consist of three members designated by each board, who may 

be members of the designating board or other experts designated by the board, and of one additional 

person designated and agreed to by the members of the special committee. In the event the special 

committee cannot agree on the additional designee, upon request of the special committee, the State 

Surgeon General may select the designee. The committee shall recommend rules necessary to resolve 

the differences. If a rule adopted pursuant to this provision is challenged, the participating boards shall 

share the costs associated with defending the rule or rules. The department shall provide legal 

representation for any special committee established pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 43, ch. 97-261; s. 43, ch. 2000-160; s. 10, ch. 2001 -277; s. 62, ch. 2008-6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.534. 

456.01 2Board rules; final agency action; challenges.— 

(1 )The State Surgeon General shall have standing to challenge any rule or proposed rule of a board 

under its jurisdiction pursuant to s. 120.56. In addition to challenges for any invalid exercise of 

delegated legislative authority, the administrative law judge, upon such a challenge by the State 

Surgeon General, may declare all or part of a rule or proposed rule invalid if it: 

(a)Does not protect the public from any significant and discernible harm or damages; 

(b)Unreasonably restricts competition or the availability of professional services in the state or in a 



significant part of the state; or 

(c)Unnecessarily increases the cost of professional services without a corresponding or equivalent 

public benefit. 

However, there shall not be created a presumption of the existence of any of the conditions cited in 

this subsection in the event that the rule or proposed rule is challenged. 

(2)In addition, either the State Surgeon General or the board shall be a substantially interested 

party for purposes of s. 120.54(7). The board may, as an adversely affected party, initiate and maintain 

an action pursuant to s. 120.68 challenging the final agency action. 

(3)No board created within the department shall have standing to challenge a rule or proposed rule 

of another board. However, if there is a dispute between boards concerning a rule or proposed rule, 

the boards may avail themselves of the provisions of s. 456.011(5). 

History.—s. 46, ch. 97-261; s. 44, ch. 2000-160; s. 63, ch. 2008-6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.544. 

456.01 3Department; general licensing provisions. 

(1 )(a)Any person desiring to be licensed in a profession within the jurisdiction of the department 

shall apply to the department in writing to take the licensure examination. The application shall be 

made on a form prepared and furnished by the department. The application form must be available on 

the World Wide Web and the department may accept electronically submitted applications beginning 

July 1, 2001. The application shall require the social security number of the applicant, except as 

provided in paragraph (b). The form shall be supplemented as needed to reflect any material change in 

any circumstance or condition stated in the application which takes place between the initial filing of 

the application and the final grant or denial of the license and which might affect the decision of the 

department. If an application is submitted electronically, the department may require supplemental 

materials, including an original signature of the applicant and verification of credentials, to be 

submitted in a nonelectronic format. An incomplete application shall expire 1 year after initial filing. 

In order to further the economic development goals of the state, and notwithstanding any law to the 

contrary, the department may enter into an agreement with the county tax collector for the purpose of 

appointing the county tax collector as the department's agent to accept applications for licenses and 

applications for renewals of licenses. The agreement must specify the time within which the tax 

collector must forward any applications and accompanying application fees to the department. 

(b)If an applicant has not been issued a social security number by the Federal Government at the 

time of application because the applicant is not a citizen or resident of this country, the department 

may process the application using a unique personal identification number. If such an applicant is 

otherwise eligible for licensure, the board, or the department when there is no board, may issue a 

temporary license to the applicant, which shall expire 30 days after issuance unless a social security 

number is obtained and submitted in writing to the department. Upon receipt of the applicant's social 



security number, the department shall issue a new license, which shall expire at the end of the current 

biennium. 

(2)Before the issuance of any license, the department shall charge an initial license fee as 

determined by the applicable board or, if there is no board, by rule of the department. Upon receipt of 

the appropriate license fee, the department shall issue a license to any person certified by the 

appropriate board, or its designee, as having met the licensure requirements imposed by law or rule. 

The license shall consist of a wallet-size identification card and a wall card measuring 61/2 inches by 5 

inches. The licensee shall surrender to the department the wallet-size identification card and the wall 

card if the licensee's license is issued in error or is revoked. 

(3)(a)The board, or the department when there is no board, may refuse to issue an initial license 

to any applicant who is under investigation or prosecution in any jurisdiction for an action that would 

constitute a violation of this chapter or the professional practice acts administered by the department 

and the boards, until such time as the investigation or prosecution is complete, and the time period in 

which the licensure application must be granted or denied shall be tolled until 1 5 days after the 

receipt of the final results of the investigation or prosecution. 

(b)If an applicant has been convicted of a felony related to the practice or ability to practice any 

health care profession, the board, or the department when there is no board, may require the 

applicant to prove that his or her civil rights have been restored. 

(c)In considering applications for licensure, the board, or the department when there is no board, 

may require a personal appearance of the applicant. If the applicant is required to appear, the time 

period in which a licensure application must be granted or denied shall be tolled until such time as the 

applicant appears. However, if the applicant fails to appear before the board at either of the next two 

regularly scheduled board meetings, or fails to appear before the department within 30 days if there is 

no board, the application for licensure shall be denied. 

(4)When any administrative law judge conducts a hearing pursuant to the provisions of chapter 120 

with respect to the issuance of a license by the department, the administrative law judge shall submit 

his or her recommended order to the appropriate board, which shall thereupon issue a final order. The 

applicant for licensure may appeal the final order of the board in accordance with the provisions of 

chapter 120. 

(5)A privilege against civil liability is hereby granted to any witness for any information furnished 

by the witness in any proceeding pursuant to this section, unless the witness acted in bad faith or with 

malice in providing such information. 

(6)As a condition of renewal of a license, the Board of Medicine, the Board of Osteopathic 

Medicine, the Board of Chiropractic Medicine, and the Board of Podiatric Medicine shall each require 

licensees which they respectively regulate to periodically demonstrate their professional competency 

by completing at least 40 hours of continuing education every 2 years. The boards may require by rule 

that up to 1 hour of the required 40 or more hours be in the area of risk management or cost 



containment. This provision shall not be construed to limit the number of hours that a licensee may 

obtain in risk management or cost containment to be credited toward satisfying the 40 or more 

required hours. This provision shall not be construed to require the boards to impose any requirement 

on licensees except for the completion of at least 40 hours of continuing education every 2 years. Each 

of such boards shall determine whether any specific continuing education requirements not otherwise 

mandated by law shall be mandated and shall approve criteria for, and the content of, any continuing 

education mandated by such board. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the board, or the 

department when there is no board, may approve by rule alternative methods of obtaining continuing 

education credits in risk management. The alternative methods may include attending a board meeting 

at which another licensee is disciplined, serving as a volunteer expert witness for the department in a 

disciplinary case, or serving as a member of a probable cause panel following the expiration of a board 

member's term. Other boards within the Division of Medical Quality Assurance, or the department if 

there is no board, may adopt rules granting continuing education hours in risk management for 

attending a board meeting at which another licensee is disciplined, for serving as a volunteer expert 

witness for the department in a disciplinary case, or for serving as a member of a probable cause panel 

following the expiration of a board member's term. 

(7)The boards, or the department when there is no board, shall require the completion of a 2-hour 

course relating to prevention of medical errors as part of the licensure and renewal process. The 2- 

hour course shall count towards the total number of continuing education hours required for the 

profession. The course shall be approved by the board or department, as appropriate, and shall include 

a study of root-cause analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. In addition, the 

course approved by the Board of Medicine and the Board of Osteopathic Medicine shall include 

information relating to the five most misdiagnosed conditions during the previous biennium, as 

determined by the board. If the course is being offered by a facility licensed pursuant to chapter 395 

for its employees, the board may approve up to 1 hour of the 2-hour course to be specifically related to 

error reduction and prevention methods used in that facility. 

(8)The respective boards within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department when there 

is no board, may adopt rules to provide for the use of approved videocassette courses, not to exceed 5 

hours per subject, to fulfill the continuing education requirements of the professions they regulate. 

Such rules shall provide for prior approval of the board, or the department when there is no board, of 

the criteria for and content of such courses and shall provide for a videocassette course validation form 

to be signed by the vendor and the licensee and submitted to the department, along with the license 

renewal application, for continuing education credit. 

(9)Any board that currently requires continuing education for renewal of a license, or the 

department if there is no board, shall adopt rules to establish the criteria for continuing education 

courses. The rules may provide that up to a maximum of 25 percent of the required continuing 

education hours can be fulfilled by the performance of pro bono services to the indigent or to 



underserved populations or in areas of critical need within the state where the licensee practices. The 

board, or the department if there is no board, must require that any pro bono services be approved in 

advance in order to receive credit for continuing education under this subsection. The standard for 

determining indigency shall be that recognized by the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines produced by 

the United States Department of Health and Human Services. The rules may provide for approval by the 

board, or the department if there is no board, that a part of the continuing education hours can be 

fulfilled by performing research in critical need areas or for training leading to advanced professional 

certification. The board, or the department if there is no board, may make rules to define underserved 

and critical need areas. The department shall adopt rules for administering continuing education 

requirements adopted by the boards or the department if there is no board. 

(10)Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, an elected official who is licensed under a practice 

act administered by the Division of Medical Quality Assurance may hold employment for compensation 

with any public agency concurrent with such public service. Such dual service must be disclosed 

according to any disclosure required by applicable law. 

(11 )In any instance in which a licensee or applicant to the department is required to be in 

compliance with a particular provision by, on, or before a certain date, and if that date occurs on a 

Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, then the licensee or applicant is deemed to be in compliance with 

the specific date requirement if the required action occurs on the first succeeding day which is not a 

Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. 

(12)Pursuant to the federal Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 

1996, each party is required to provide his or her social security number in accordance with this 

section. Disclosure of social security numbers obtained through this requirement shall be limited to the 

purpose of administration of the Title IV-D program for child support enforcement. 

History.—s. 44, ch. 92-33; s. 1, ch. 93-27; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 27, ch. 95-144; s. 2, ch. 96-309; s. 209, ch. 96-410; s. 

1079, ch. 97-103; s. 64, ch. 97-170; s. 51, ch. 97-261; s. 54, ch. 97-278; ss. 7, 237, 262, ch. 98-166; s. 145, ch. 99-251; s. 

76, ch. 99-397; s. 45, ch. 2000-160; s. 20, ch. 2000-318; ss. 11, 68, ch. 2001-277; s. 11, ch. 2003-416; s. 1, ch. 2005-62. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2141; s. 455.564. 

456.013 5General background screening provisions.— 

(1 )An application for initial licensure received on or after January 1, 2013, under chapter 458, 

chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 464, or s. 465.022 shall include fingerprints pursuant to 

procedures established by the department through a vendor approved by the Department of Law 

Enforcement and fees imposed for the initial screening and retention of fingerprints. Fingerprints must 

be submitted electronically to the Department of Law Enforcement for state processing, and the 

Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation 

for national processing. Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall screen the results to 

determine if an applicant meets licensure requirements. For any subsequent renewal of the applicant's 



license that requires a national criminal history check, the department shall request the Department of 

Law Enforcement to forward the retained fingerprints of the applicant to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation. 

(2)All fingerprints submitted to the Department of Law Enforcement as required under subsection 

(1) shall be retained by the Department of Law Enforcement as provided under s. 943.05(2)(g) and (h) 

and (3). The department shall notify the Department of Law Enforcement regarding any person whose 

fingerprints have been retained but who is no longer licensed. 

(3)The costs of fingerprint processing, including the cost for retaining fingerprints, shall be borne 

by the applicant subject to the background screening. 

History.—s. 13, ch. 201 2-73. 

456.Ol4PubIic inspection of information required from applicants; exceptions; examination 

hearing. 

(1 )A1l information required by the department of any applicant shall be a public record and shall 

be open to public inspection pursuant to s. 119.07, except financial information, medical information, 

school transcripts, examination questions, answers, papers, grades, and grading keys, which are 

confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and shall not be discussed with or made accessible to 

anyone except the program director of an approved program or accredited program as provided in s. 

464.019(7), members of the board, the department, and staff thereof, who have a bona fide need to 

know such information. Any information supplied to the department by any other agency which is 

exempt from the provisions of chapter 119 or is confidential shall remain exempt or confidential 

pursuant to applicable law while in the custody of the department or the agency. 

(2)The department shall establish by rule the procedure by which an applicant, and the applicant's 

attorney, may review examination questions and answers. Examination questions and answers are not 

subject to discovery but may be introduced into evidence and considered only in camera in any 

administrative proceeding under chapter 120. If an administrative hearing is held, the department shall 

provide challenged examination questions and answers to the administrative law judge. The 

examination questions and answers provided at the hearing are confidential and exempt from s. 

119.07(1), unless invalidated by the administrative law judge. 

(3)Unless an applicant notifies the department at least 5 days prior to an examination hearing of 

the applicant's inability to attend, or unless an applicant can demonstrate an extreme emergency for 

failing to attend, the department may require an applicant who fails to attend to pay reasonable 

attorney's fees, costs, and court costs of the department for the examination hearing. 

History.—s. 76, ch. 97-261; s. 46, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2010-37. 

Note.—Former s. 455.647. 

456.01 5Limited licenses.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that, absent a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the 



public, the use of retired professionals in good standing to serve the indigent, underserved, or critical 

need populations of this state should be encouraged. To that end, the board, or the department when 

there is no board, may adopt rules to permit practice by retired professionals as limited licensees 

under this section. 

(2)Any person desiring to obtain a limited license, when permitted by rule, shall submit to the 

board, or the department when there is no board, an application and fee, not to exceed $300, and an 

affidavit stating that the applicant has been licensed to practice in any jurisdiction in the United States 

for at least 10 years in the profession for which the applicant seeks a limited license. The affidavit 

shall also state that the applicant has retired or intends to retire from the practice of that profession 

and intends to practice only pursuant to the restrictions of the limited license granted pursuant to this 

section. If the applicant for a limited license submits a notarized statement from the employer stating 

that the applicant will not receive monetary compensation for any service involving the practice of her 

or his profession, the application and all licensure fees shall be waived. 

(3)The board, or the department when there is no board, may deny limited licensure to an 

applicant who has committed, or is under investigation or prosecution for, any act which would 

constitute the basis for discipline pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or the applicable practice 

act. 

(4)The recipient of a limited license may practice only in the employ of public agencies or 

institutions or nonprofit agencies or institutions which meet the requirements of s. 501 (c)(3) of the 

Internal Revenue Code, and which provide professional liability coverage for acts or omissions of the 

limited licensee. A limited licensee may provide services only to the indigent, underserved, or critical 

need populations within the state. The standard for determining indigency shall be that recognized by 

the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines produced by the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services. The board, or the department when there is no board, may adopt rules to define 

underserved and critical need areas and to ensure implementation of this section. 

(5)A board, or the department when there is no board, may provide by rule for supervision of 

limited licensees to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

(6)Each applicant granted a limited license is subject to all the provisions of this chapter and the 

respective practice act under which the limited license is issued which are not in conflict with this 

section. 

(7)This section does not apply to chapter 458 or chapter 459. 

History.—s. 50, ch. 97-261; s. 22, ch. 99-7; s. 47, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.561. 

456.Ol6Use of professional testing services.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the 

contrary, the department may use a professional testing service to prepare, administer, grade, and 

evaluate any computerized examination, when that service is available and approved by the board, or 



the department if there is no board. 

History.—s. 53, ch. 97-261; s. 48, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.571. 

456.01 7Examinations.— 

(1 )(a)The department shalt provide, contract, or approve services for the development, 

preparation, administration, scoring, score reporting, and evaluation of all examinations, in 

consultation with the appropriate board. The department shalt certify that examinations developed 

and approved by the department adequately and reliably measure an applicant's ability to practice the 

profession regulated by the department. After an examination developed or approved by the 

department has been administered, the board, or the department when there is no board, may reject 

any question which does not reliably measure the general areas of competency specified in the rules of 

the board. The department may contract for the preparation, administration, scoring, score reporting, 

and evaluation of examinations, when such services are available and approved by the board. 

(b)For each examination developed by the department or contracted vendor, to the extent not 

otherwise specified by statute, the board, or the department when there is no board, shall by rule 

specify the general areas of competency to be covered by each examination, the relative weight to be 

assigned in grading each area tested, and the score necessary to achieve a passing grade. The 

department shall assess fees to cover the actual cost for any purchase, development, validation, 

administration, and defense of required examinations. This subsection does not apply to national 

examinations approved and administered pursuant to paragraph (c). If a practical examination is 

deemed to be necessary, the rules shall specify the criteria by which examiners are to be selected, the 

grading criteria to be used by the examiner, the relative weight to be assigned in grading each 

criterion, and the score necessary to achieve a passing grade. When a mandatory standardization 

exercise for a practical examination is required by law, the board, or the department when there is no 

board, may conduct such exercise. Therefore, board members, or employees of the department when 

there is no board, may serve as examiners at a practical examination with the consent of the board or 

department, as appropriate. 

(c)The board, or the department when there is no board, shall approve by rule the use of one or 

more national examinations that the department has certified as meeting requirements of national 

examinations and generally accepted testing standards pursuant to department rules. 

1 .Providers of examinations seeking certification shall pay the actual costs incurred by the 

department in making a determination regarding the certification. The name and number of a 

candidate may be provided to a national contractor for the limited purpose of preparing the grade tape 

and information to be returned to the board or department; or, to the extent otherwise specified by 

rule, the candidate may apply directly to the vendor of the national examination and supply test score 

information to the department. The department may delegate to the board the duty to provide and 



administer the examination. Any national examination approved by a board, or the department when 

there is no board, prior to October 1, 1997, is deemed certified under this paragraph. 

2.Neither the board nor the department may administer a state-developed written examination if a 

national examination has been certified by the department. The examination may be administered 

electronically if adequate security measures are used, as determined by rule of the department. 

3.The board, or the department when there is no board, may administer a state-developed 

practical or clinical examination, as required by the applicable practice act, if all costs of 

development, purchase, validation, administration, review, and defense are paid by the examination 

candidate prior to the administration of the examination. If a national practical or clinical examination 

is available and certified by the department pursuant to this section, the board, or the department 

when there is no board, may administer the national examination. 

4.It is the intent of the Legislature to reduce the costs associated with state examinations and to 

encourage the use of national examinations whenever possible. 

(d)Each board, or the department when there is no board, shall adopt rules regarding the security 

and monitoring of examinations. The department shall implement those rules adopted by the 

respective boards. In order to maintain the security of examinations, the department may employ the 

procedures set forth in s. 456.065 to seek fines and injunctive relief against an examinee who violates 

the provisions of s. 456.018 or the rules adopted pursuant to this paragraph. The department, or any 

agent thereof, may, for the purposes of investigation, confiscate any written, photographic, or 

recording material or device in the possession of the examinee at the examination site which the 

department deems necessary to enforce such provisions or rules. The scores of candidates who have 

taken state-developed examinations shall be provided to the candidates electronically using a 

candidate identification number, and the department shall post the aggregate scores on the 

department's website without identifying the names of the candidates. 

(e)If the professional board with jurisdiction over an examination concurs, the department may, 

for a fee, share with any other state's licensing authority or a national testing entity an examination or 

examination item bank developed by or for the department unless prohibited by a contract entered 

into by the department for development or purchase of the examination. The department, with the 

concurrence of the appropriate board, shall establish guidelines that ensure security of a shared exam 

and shall require that any other state's licensing authority comply with those guidelines. Those 

guidelines shall be approved by the appropriate professional board. All fees paid by the user shall be 

applied to the department's examination and development program for professions regulated by this 

chapter. 

(f)The department may adopt rules necessary to administer this subsection. 

(2)For each examination developed by the department or a contracted vendor, the board, or the 

department when there is no board, shall adopt rules providing for reexamination of any applicants 

who failed an examination developed by the department or a contracted vendor. If both a written and 



a practical examination are given, an applicant shall be required to retake only the portion of the 

examination on which the applicant failed to achieve a passing grade, if the applicant successfully 

passes that portion within a reasonable time, as determined by rule of the board, or the department 

when there is no board, of passing the other portion. Except for national examinations approved and 

administered pursuant to this section, the department shall provide procedures for applicants who fail 

an examination developed by the department or a contracted vendor to review their examination 

questions, answers, papers, grades, and grading key for the questions the candidate answered 

incorrectly or, if not feasible, the parts of the examination failed. Applicants shall bear the actual cost 

for the department to provide examination review pursuant to this subsection. An applicant may waive 

in writing the confidentiality of the applicant's examination grades. Notwithstanding any other 

provisions, only candidates who fail an examination with a score that is less than 10 percent below the 

minimum score required to pass the examination shall be entitled to challenge the validity of the 

examination at hearing. 

(3)For each examination developed or administered by the department or a contracted vendor, an 

accurate record of each applicant's examination questions, answers, papers, grades, and grading key 

shall be kept for a period of not less than 2 years immediately following the examination, and such 

record shall thereafter be maintained or destroyed as provided in chapters 119 and 257. This 

subsection does not apply to national examinations approved and administered pursuant to this 

section. 

(4)Meetings of any member of the department or of any board within the department held for the 

exclusive purpose of creating or reviewing licensure examination questions or proposed examination 

questions are exempt from the provisions of s. 286.011 and s. 24(b), Art. I of the State Constitution. 

Any public records, such as tape recordings, minutes, or notes, generated during or as a result of such 

meetings are confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the 

State Constitution. However, these exemptions shall not affect the right of any person to review an 

examination as provided in subsection (2). 

(5)For examinations developed by the department or a contracted vendor, each board, or the 

department when there is no board, may provide licensure examinations in an applicant's native 

language. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, applicants for examination or reexamination 

pursuant to this subsection shall bear the full cost for the department's development, preparation, 

validation, administration, grading, and evaluation of any examination in a language other than English 

prior to the examination being administered. Requests for translated examinations must be on file in 

the board office at least 6 months prior to the scheduled examination. When determining whether it is 

in the public interest to allow the examination to be translated into a language other than English, the 

board shall consider the percentage of the population who speak the applicant's native language. 

Applicants must apply for translation to the applicable board at least 6 months prior to the scheduled 

examination. 



(6)In addition to meeting any other requirements for licensure by examination or by endorsement, 

and notwithstanding the provisions in paragraph (1 )(c), an applicant may be required by a board, or the 

department when there is no board, to certify competency in state laws and rules relating to the 

applicable practice act. Beginning October 1, 2001, all laws and rules examinations shall be 

administered electronically unless the laws and rules examination is administered concurrently with 

another written examination for that profession or unless the electronic administration would be 

substantially more expensive. 

(7)The department may post examination scores electronically on the Internet in lieu of mailing 

the scores to each applicant. The electronic posting of the examination scores meets the requirements 

of chapter 120 if the department also posts along with the examination scores a notification of the 

rights set forth in chapter 120. The date of receipt for purposes of chapter 120 is the date the 

examination scores are posted electronically. The department shall also notify the applicant when 

scores are posted electronically of the availability of postexamination review, if applicable. 

History.—s. 46, ch. 92-33; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 1, ch. 95-367; s. 304, ch. 96-406; s. 1081, ch. 97-103; s. 54, ch. 97-261; 

s. 238, ch. 98-166; s. 79, ch. 99-397; s. 49, ch. 2000-160; s. 46, ch. 2000-318; s. 12, ch. 2001-277; s. 2, ch. 2005-62. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2173; s. 455.574. 

456.Ol8PenaIty for theft or reproduction of an examination.—In addition to, or in lieu of, any 

other discipline imposed pursuant to s. 456.072, the theft of an examination in whole or in part or the 

act of reproducing or copying any examination administered by the department, whether such 

examination is reproduced or copied in part or in whole and by any means, constitutes a felony of the 

third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

History.—s. 55, ch. 97-261; s. 50, ch. 2000-160; s. 27, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.577. 

456.Ol9Restriction on requirement of citizenship.—A person is not disqualified from practicing 

an occupation or profession regulated by the state solely because she or he is not a United States 

citizen. 

History.—s. 36, ch. 97-261; s. 20, ch. 99-7; s. 51, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.511. 

456.O2lQualification of immigrants for examination to practice a licensed profession or 

occupation.— 

(1 )It is the declared purpose of this section to encourage the use of foreign-speaking Florida 

residents duly qualified to become actively qualified in their professions so that all people of this state 

may receive better services. 

(2)Any person who has successfully completed, or is currently enrolled in, an approved course of 

study created pursuant to chapters 74-105 and 75-177, Laws of Florida, shall be deemed qualified for 



examination and reexaminations for a professional or occupational license which shall be administered 

in the English language unless 1 5 or more such applicants request that the reexamination be 

administered in their native language. In the event that such reexamination is administered in a foreign 

language, the full cost to the board of preparing and administering it shall be borne by the applicants. 

(3)Each board within the department shall adopt and implement programs designed to qualify for 

examination all persons who were resident nationals of the Republic of Cuba and who, on July 1, 1977, 

were residents of this state. 

History.—s. 37, ch. 97-261; s. 51, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.514. 

456.O22Foreign-trained professionals; special examination and license provisions.— 

(1)When not otherwise provided by law, within its jurisdiction, the department shall by rule 

provide procedures under which exiled professionals may be examined within each practice act. A 

person shall be eligible for such examination if the person: 

(a)Immigrated to the United States after leaving the person's home country because of political 

reasons, provided such country is located in the Western Hemisphere and lacks diplomatic relations 

with the United States; 

(b)Applies to the department and submits a fee; 

(c)Was a Florida resident immediately preceding the person's application; 

(d)Demonstrates to the department, through submission of documentation verified by the 

applicant's respective professional association in exile, that the applicant was graduated with an 

appropriate professional or occupational degree from a college or university; however, the department 

may not require receipt of any documentation from the Republic of Cuba as a condition of eligibility 

under this section; 

(e)Lawfully practiced the profession for at least 3 years; 

(f)Prior to 1980, successfully completed an approved course of study pursuant to chapters 74-105 

and 75-177, Laws of Florida; and 

(g)Presents a certificate demonstrating the successful completion of a continuing education 

program which offers a course of study that will prepare the applicant for the examination offered 

under subsection (2). The department shall develop rules for the approval of such programs for its 

boards. 

(2)Upon request of a person who meets the requirements of subsection (1) and submits an 

examination fee, the department, for its boards, shall provide a written practical examination which 

tests the person's current ability to practice the profession competently in accordance with the actual 

practice of the profession. Evidence of meeting the requirements of subsection (1) shall be treated by 

the department as evidence of the applicant's preparation in the academic and preprofessional 

fundamentals necessary for successful professional practice, and the applicant shall not be examined 



by the department on such fundamentals. 

(3)The fees charged for the examinations offered under subsection (2) shall be established by the 

department, for its boards, by rule and shall be sufficient to develop or to contract for the 

development of the examination and its administration, grading, and grade reviews. 

(4)The department shall examine any applicant who meets the requirements of subsections (1) and 

(2). Upon passing the examination and the issuance of the license, a licensee is subject to the 

administrative requirements of this chapter and the respective practice act under which the license is 

issued. Each applicant so licensed is subject to all provisions of this chapter and the respective practice 

act under which the license was issued. 

(5)Upon a request by an applicant otherwise qualified under this section, the examinations offered 

under subsection (2) may be given in the applicant's native language, provided that any translation 

costs are borne by the applicant. 

(6)The department, for its boards, shall not issue an initial license to, or renew a license of, any 

applicant or licensee who is under investigation or prosecution in any jurisdiction for an action which 

would constitute a violation of this chapter or the professional practice acts administered by the 

department and the boards until such time as the investigation or prosecution is complete, at which 

time the provisions of the professional practice acts shall apply. 

History.—s. 56, ch. 97-261; s. 52, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.581. 

456.O23Exemption for certain out-of-state or foreign professionals; limited practice 

permitted. 

(1 )A professional of any other state or of any territory or other jurisdiction of the United States or 

of any other nation or foreign jurisdiction is exempt from the requirements of licensure under this 

chapter and the applicable professional practice act under the agency with regulatory jurisdiction over 

the profession if that profession is regulated in this state under the agency with regulatory jurisdiction 

over the profession and if that person: 

(a)Holds, if so required in the jurisdiction in which that person practices, an active license to 

practice that profession. 

(b)Engages in the active practice of that profession outside the state. 

(c)Is employed or designated in that professional capacity by a sports entity visiting the state for a 

specific sporting event. 

(2)A professional's practice under this section is limited to the members, coaches, and staff of the 

team for which that professional is employed or designated and to any animals used if the sporting 

event for which that professional is employed or designated involves animals. A professional practicing 

under authority of this section shall not have practice privileges in any licensed health care facility or 

veterinary facility without the approval of that facility. 



History.—s. 57, ch. 97-261; s. 53, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.584. 

456.O24Members of Armed Forces in good standing with administrative boards or the 

department; spouses.— 

(1 )Any member of the Armed Forces of the United States now or hereafter on active duty who, at 

the time of becoming such a member, was in good standing with any administrative board of the state, 

or the department when there is no board, and was entitled to practice or engage in his or her 

profession or vocation in the state shall be kept in good standing by such administrative board, or the 

department when there is no board, without registering, paying dues or fees, or performing any other 

act on his or her part to be performed, as long as he or she is a member of the Armed Forces of the 

United States on active duty and for a period of 6 months after discharge from active duty as a member 

of the Armed Forces of the United States, provided he or she is not engaged in his or her licensed 

profession or vocation in the private sector for profit. 

(2)The boards listed in s. 20.43, or the department when there is no board, shall adopt rules 

exempting the spouses of members of the Armed Forces of the United States from licensure renewal 

provisions, but only in cases of absence from the state because of their spouses' duties with the Armed 

Forces. 

(3)(a)The board, or the department if there is no board, may issue a temporary professional license 

to the spouse of an active duty member of the Armed Forces of the United States who submits to the 

department: 

1 .A completed application upon a form prepared and furnished by the department in accordance 

with the board's rules; 

2.The required application fee; 

3.Proof that the applicant is married to a member of the Armed Forces of the United States who is 

on active duty; 

4.Proof that the applicant holds a valid license for the profession issued by another state, the 

District of Columbia, or a possession or territory of the United States, and is not the subject of any 

disciplinary proceeding in any jurisdiction in which the applicant holds a license to practice a 

profession regulated by this chapter; 

5.Proof that the applicant's spouse is assigned to a duty station in this state pursuant to the 

member's official active duty military orders; and 

6.Proof that the applicant would otherwise be entitled to full licensure under the appropriate 

practice act, and is eligible to take the respective licensure examination as required in Florida. 

(b)The applicant must also submit to the Department of Law Enforcement a complete set of 

fingerprints. The Department of Law Enforcement shall conduct a statewide criminal history check and 

forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history check. 



(c)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall review the results of the state and 

federal criminal history checks according to the level 2 screening standards in s. 435.04 when granting 

an exemption and when granting or denying the temporary license. 

(d)The applicant shall pay the cost of fingerprint processing. If the fingerprints are submitted 

through an authorized agency or vendor, the agency or vendor shall collect the required processing 

fees and remit the fees to the Department of Law Enforcement. 

(e)The department shall set an application fee, which may not exceed the cost of issuing the 

license. 

(f)A temporary license expires 12 months after the date of issuance and is not renewable. 

(g)An applicant for a temporary license under this subsection is subject to the requirements under 

s. 456.013(3)(a) and (c). 

(h)An applicant shall be deemed ineligible for a temporary license pursuant to this section if the 

applicant: 

1 .Has been convicted of or pled nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, any felony or 

misdemeanor related to the practice of a health care profession; 

2.Has had a health care provider license revoked or suspended from another of the United States, 

the District of Columbia, or a United States territory; 

3.Has been reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank, unless the applicant has successfully 

appealed to have his or her name removed from the data bank; or 

4.Has previously failed the Florida examination required to receive a license to practice the 

profession for which the applicant is seeking a license. 

(i)The board, or department if there is no board, may revoke a temporary license upon finding that 

the individual violated the profession's governing practice act. 

(j)An applicant who is issued a temporary professional license to practice as a dentist pursuant to 

this section must practice under the indirect supervision, as defined in s. 466.003, of a dentist licensed 

pursuant to chapter 466. 

History.—s. 35, ch. 97-261; s. 19, ch. 99-7; s. 73, ch. 99-397; s. 54, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2011-95. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.507. 

456.O25Fees; receipts; disposition.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that all costs of regulating health care professions and 

practitioners shall be borne solely by licensees and licensure applicants. It is also the intent of the 

Legislature that fees should be reasonable and not serve as a barrier to licensure. Moreover, it is the 

intent of the Legislature that the department operate as efficiently as possible and regularly report to 

the Legislature additional methods to streamline operational costs. Therefore, the boards in 

consultation with the department, or the department if there is no board, shall, by rule, set renewal 

fees which: 



(a)Shall be based on revenue projections prepared using generally accepted accounting 

procedures; 

(b)Shall be adequate to cover all expenses relating to that board identified in the department's 

long-range policy plan, as required by s. 456.005; 

(c)Shall be reasonable, fair, and not serve as a barrier to licensure; 

(d)Shall be based on potential earnings from working under the scope of the license; 

(e)Shall be similar to fees imposed on similar licensure types; 

(f)Shall not be more than 10 percent greater than the actual cost to regulate that profession for 

the previous biennium; and 

(g)Shall be subject to challenge pursuant to chapter 120. 

(2)The chairpersons of the boards and councils listed in s. 20.43(3)(g) shall meet annually at 

division headquarters to review the long-range policy plan required by s. 456.005 and current and 

proposed fee schedules. The chairpersons shall make recommendations for any necessary statutory 

changes relating to fees and fee caps. Such recommendations shall be compiled by the Department of 

Health and be included in the annual report to the Legislature required by s. 456.026 as well as be 

included in the long-range policy plan required by s. 456.005. 

(3)Each board within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department when there is no 

board, shall determine by rule the amount of license fees for the profession it regulates, based upon 

long-range estimates prepared by the department of the revenue required to implement laws relating 

to the regulation of professions by the department and the board. Each board, or the department if 

there is no board, shall ensure that license fees are adequate to cover all anticipated costs and to 

maintain a reasonable cash balance, as determined by rule of the agency, with advice of the applicable 

board. If sufficient action is not taken by a board within 1 year after notification by the department 

that license fees are projected to be inadequate, the department shall set license fees on behalf of the 

applicable board to cover anticipated costs and to maintain the required cash balance. The department 

shall include recommended fee cap increases in its annual report to the Legislature. Further, it is the 

legislative intent that no regulated profession operate with a negative cash balance. The department 

may provide by rule for advancing sufficient funds to any profession operating with a negative cash 

balance. The advancement may be for a period not to exceed 2 consecutive years, and the regulated 

profession must pay interest. Interest shall be calculated at the current rate earned on investments of 

a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter. Interest earned shall be allocated to 

the various funds in accordance with the allocation of investment earnings during the period of the 

advance. 

(4)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may charge a fee not to exceed $25, as 

determined by rule, for the issuance of a wall certificate pursuant to s. 456.01 3(2) requested by a 

licensee who was licensed prior to July 1, 1998, or for the issuance of a duplicate wall certificate 

requested by any licensee. 



(5)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may, by rule, assess and collect a one-time 

fee from each active status licensee and each inactive status licensee in an amount necessary to 

eliminate a cash deficit or, if there is not a cash deficit, in an amount sufficient to maintain the 

financial integrity of the professions as required in this section. Not more than one such assessment 

may be made in any 4-year period without specific legislative authorization. 

(6)If the cash balance of the trust fund at the end of any fiscal year exceeds the total 

appropriation provided for the regulation of the health care professions in the prior fiscal year, the 

boards, in consultation with the department, may lower the license renewal fees. 

(7)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall establish, by rule, a fee not to exceed 

$250 for anyone seeking approval to provide continuing education courses or programs and shall 

establish by rule a biennial renewal fee not to exceed $250 for the renewal of providership of such 

courses. The fees collected from continuing education providers shall be used for the purposes of 

reviewing course provider applications, monitoring the integrity of the courses provided, covering legal 

expenses incurred as a result of not granting or renewing a providership, and developing and 

maintaining an electronic continuing education tracking system. The department shall implement an 

electronic continuing education tracking system for each new biennial renewal cycle for which 

electronic renewals are implemented after the effective date of this act and shall integrate such 

system into the licensure and renewal system. All approved continuing education providers shall 

provide information on course attendance to the department necessary to implement the electronic 

tracking system. The department shall, by rule, specify the form and procedures by which the 

information is to be submitted. 

(8)All moneys collected by the department from fees or fines or from costs awarded to the agency 

by a court shall be paid into a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter. The 

Legislature shall appropriate funds from this trust fund sufficient to carry out this chapter and the 

provisions of law with respect to professions regulated by the Division of Medical Quality Assurance 

within the department and the boards. The department may contract with public and private entities 

to receive and deposit revenue pursuant to this section. The department shall maintain separate 

accounts in the trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter for every profession 

within the department. To the maximum extent possible, the department shall directly charge all 

expenses to the account of each regulated profession. For the purpose of this subsection, direct charge 

expenses include, but are not limited to, costs for investigations, examinations, and legal services. For 

expenses that cannot be charged directly, the department shall provide for the proportionate 

allocation among the accounts of expenses incurred by the department in the performance of its duties 

with respect to each regulated profession. The regulation by the department of professions, as defined 

in this chapter, shall be financed solely from revenue collected by it from fees and other charges and 

deposited in the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund, and all such revenue is hereby appropriated to 

the department. However, it is legislative intent that each profession shall operate within its 



anticipated fees. The department may not expend funds from the account of a profession to pay for 

the expenses incurred on behalf of another profession, except that the Board of Nursing must pay for 

any costs incurred in the regulation of certified nursing assistants. The department shall maintain 

adequate records to support its allocation of agency expenses. The department shall provide any board 

with reasonable access to these records upon request. On or before October 1 of each year, the 

department shall provide each board an annual report of revenue and direct and allocated expenses 

related to the operation of that profession. The board shall use these reports and the department's 

adopted long-range plan to determine the amount of license fees. A condensed version of this 

information, with the department's recommendations, shall be included in the annual report to the 

Legislature prepared under s. 456.026. 

(9)The department shall provide a management report of revenues and expenditures, performance 

measures, and recommendations to each board at least once a quarter. 

(10)If a duplicate license is required or requested by the licensee, the board or, if there is no 

board, the department may charge a fee as determined by rule not to exceed $25 before issuance of 

the duplicate license. 

(11 )The department or the appropriate board shall charge a fee not to exceed $25 for the 

certification of a public record. The fee shall be determined by rule of the department. The 

department or the appropriate board shall assess a fee for duplicating a public record as provided in s. 

119.07(4). 

History.—s. 49, ch. 92-33; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 58, ch. 97-261; s. 80, ch. 99-397; s. 55, ch. 2000-160; ss. 32, 164, ch. 

2000-318; s. 73, ch. 2001-62; s. 6, ch. 2001-277; s. 12, ch. 2003-416; s. 45, ch. 2004-335; s. 149, ch. 2010-102. 

Note.—Former s. 455.220; s. 455.587. 

456.O26AnnuaI report concerning finances, administrative complaints, disciplinary actions, and 

recommendations.—The department is directed to prepare and submit a report to the President of the 

Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives by November 1 of each year. In addition to 

finances and any other information the Legislature may require, the report shall include statistics and 

relevant information, profession by profession, detailing: 

(1 )The revenues, expenditures, and cash balances for the prior year, and a review of the adequacy 

of existing fees. 

(2)The number of complaints received and investigated. 

(3)The number of findings of probable cause made. 

(4)The number of findings of no probable cause made. 

(5)The number of administrative complaints filed. 

(6)The disposition of all administrative complaints. 

(7)A description of disciplinary actions taken. 

(8)A description of any effort by the department to reduce or otherwise close any investigation or 



disciplinary proceeding not before the Division of Administrative Hearings under chapter 120 or 

otherwise not completed within 1 year after the initial filing of a complaint under this chapter. 

(9)The status of the development and implementation of rules providing for disciplinary guidelines 

pursuant to s. 456.079. 

(10)Such recommendations for administrative and statutory changes necessary to facilitate 

efficient and cost-effective operation of the department and the various boards. 

History.—s. 75, ch. 97-261; s. 56, ch. 2000-160; s. 4, ch. 2002-254. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.644. 

456.O27Education; accreditation.—Notwithstanding any other provision of law, educational 

programs and institutions which are required by statute to be accredited, but which were accredited 

by an agency that has since ceased to perform an accrediting function, shall be recognized until such 

programs and institutions are accredited by a qualified successor to the original accrediting agency, an 

accrediting agency recognized by the United States Department of Education, or an accrediting agency 

recognized by the board, or the department when there is no board. 

History.—s. 48, ch. 97-261; s. 57, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.551. 

456.O28Consultation with postsecondary education boards prior to adoption of changes to 

training requirements.—Any state agency or board that has jurisdiction over the regulation of a 

profession or occupation shall consult with the Commission for Independent Education, the Board of 

Governors of the State University System, and the State Board of Education prior to adopting any 

changes to training requirements relating to entry into the profession or occupation. This consultation 

must allow the educational board to provide advice regarding the impact of the proposed changes in 

terms of the length of time necessary to complete the training program and the fiscal impact of the 

changes. The educational board must be consulted only when an institution offering the training 

program falls under its jurisdiction. 

History.—s. 49, ch. 97-261; s. 35, ch. 98-421; s. 57, ch. 2000-160; s. 72, ch. 2004-5; s. 14, ch. 2004-41; s. 54, ch. 2007- 

217. 

Note.—Former s. 455.554. 

456.O29Education; substituting demonstration of competency for clock-hour requirements.— 

Any board, or the department when there is no board, that requires student completion of a specific 

number of clock hours of classroom instruction for initial licensure purposes shall establish the minimal 

competencies that such students must demonstrate in order to be licensed. The demonstration of such 

competencies may be substituted for specific classroom clock-hour requirements established in statute 

or rule which are related to instructional programs for licensure purposes. Student demonstration of 

the established minimum competencies shall be certified by the educational institution. The provisions 



of this section shall not apply to boards for which federal licensure standards are more restrictive or 

stringent than the standards prescribed in statute. 

History.—s. 47, ch. 97-261; s. 57, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.547. 

456.03 IRequirement for instruction on domestic violence.— 

(1 )(a)The appropriate board shall require each person licensed or certified under chapter 458, 

chapter 459, part I of chapter 464, chapter 466, chapter 467, chapter 490, or chapter 491 to complete 

a 2-hour continuing education course, approved by the board, on domestic violence, as defined in s. 

741 .28, as part of every third biennial relicensure or recertification. The course shall consist of 

information on the number of patients in that professional's practice who are likely to be victims of 

domestic violence and the number who are likely to be perpetrators of domestic violence, screening 

procedures for determining whether a patient has any history of being either a victim or a perpetrator 

of domestic violence, and instruction on how to provide such patients with information on, or how to 

refer such patients to, resources in the local community, such as domestic violence centers and other 

advocacy groups, that provide legal aid, shelter, victim counseling, batterer counseling, or child 

protection services. 

(b)Each such licensee or certificateholder shall submit confirmation of having completed such 

course, on a form provided by the board, when submitting fees for every third biennial renewal. 

(c)The board may approve additional equivalent courses that may be used to satisfy the 

requirements of paragraph (a). Each licensing board that requires a licensee to complete an 

educational course pursuant to this subsection may include the hour required for completion of the 

course in the total hours of continuing education required by law for such profession unless the 

continuing education requirements for such profession consist of fewer than 30 hours biennially. 

(d)Any person holding two or more licenses subject to the provisions of this subsection shall be 

permitted to show proof of having taken one board-approved course on domestic violence, for purposes 

of relicensure or recertification for additional licenses. 

(e)Failure to comply with the requirements of this subsection shall constitute grounds for 

disciplinary action under each respective practice act and under s. 456.072(1 )(k). In addition to 

discipline by the board, the licensee shall be required to complete such course. 

(2)Each board may adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this section. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 95-187; s. 61, ch. 97-261; s. 58, ch. 2000-160; s. 6, ch. 2000-295; s. 112, ch. 2000-318; s. 1, ch. 

2001-176; s. 1, ch. 2001-250; s. 105, ch. 2001-277; s. 1, ch. 2006-251. 

Note.—Former s. 455.222; s. 455.597. 

456.O32Hepatitis B or HIV carriers.— 

(1 )The department and each appropriate board within the Division of Medical Quality Assurance 

shall have the authority to establish procedures to handle, counsel, and provide other services to 



health care professionals within their respective boards who are infected with hepatitis B or the human 

immunodeficiency virus. 

(2)Any person licensed by the department and any other person employed by a health care facility 

who contracts a blood-borne infection shall have a rebuttable presumption that the illness was 

contracted in the course and scope of his or her employment, provided that the person, as soon as 

practicable, reports to the person's supervisor or the facility's risk manager any significant exposure, 

as that term is defined in s. 381 .004(1 )(c), to blood or body fluids. The employer may test the blood or 

body fluid to determine if it is infected with the same disease contracted by the employee. The 

employer may rebut the presumption by the preponderance of the evidence. Except as expressly 

provided in this subsection, there shall be no presumption that a blood-borne infection is a job-related 

injury or illness. 

History.—s. 75, ch. 91 -297; s. 76, ch. 94-218; s. 62, ch. 97-261; s. 81, ch. 99-397; s. 59, ch. 2000-160; s. 121, ch. 2012- 

184. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2224; s. 455.601. 

456.O33Requirement for instruction for certain licensees on HIV and AIDS.—The following 

requirements apply to each person licensed or certified under chapter 457; chapter 458; chapter 459; 

chapter 460; chapter 461; chapter 463; part I of chapter 464; chapter 465; chapter 466; part II, part III, 

part V, or part X of chapter 468; or chapter 486: 

(1 )Each person shall be required by the appropriate board to complete no later than upon first 

renewal a continuing educational course, approved by the board, on human immunodeficiency virus 

and acquired immune deficiency syndrome as part of biennial relicensure or recertification. The course 

shall consist of education on the modes of transmission, infection control procedures, clinical 

management, and prevention of human immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency 

syndrome. Such course shall include information on current Florida law on acquired immune deficiency 

syndrome and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, treatment of patients, and any 

protocols and procedures applicable to human immunodeficiency virus counseling and testing, 

reporting, the offering of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner notification issues pursuant to 

ss. 381.004 and 384.25. 

(2)Each person shall submit confirmation of having completed the course required under subsection 

(1), on a form as provided by the board, when submitting fees for first renewal. 

(3)The board shall have the authority to approve additional equivalent courses that may be used to 

satisfy the requirements in subsection (1). Each licensing board that requires a licensee to complete an 

educational course pursuant to this section may count the hours required for completion of the course 

included in the total continuing educational requirements as required by law. 

(4)Any person holding two or more licenses subject to the provisions of this section shall be 

permitted to show proof of having taken one board-approved course on human immunodeficiency virus 



and acquired immune deficiency syndrome, for purposes of relicensure or recertification for additional 

licenses. 

(5)Failure to comply with the above requirements shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action 

under each respective licensing chapter and s. 456.072(1 )(e). In addition to discipline by the board, the 

licensee shall be required to complete the course. 

History.—s. 63, ch. 97-261; s. 4, ch. 98-171; S. 9, ch. 99-331; s. 82, ch. 99-397; s. 60, ch. 2000-160; s. 113, ch. 2000- 

318; s. 2, ch. 2001-176; s. 2, ch. 2001-250; s. 106, ch. 2001-277; s. 2, ch. 2006-251. 

Note.—Former s. 455.604. 

456.O35Address of record.— 

(1 )Each licensee of the department is solely responsible for notifying the department in writing of 

the licensee's current mailing address and place of practice, as defined by rule of the board or the 

department if there is no board. Electronic notification shall be allowed by the department; however, 

it shall be the responsibility of the licensee to ensure that the electronic notification was received by 

the department. A licensee's failure to notify the department of a change of address constitutes a 

violation of this section, and the licensee may be disciplined by the board or the department if there is 

no board. 

(2)Notwithstanding any other law, service by regular mail to a licensee's last known address of 

record with the department constitutes adequate and sufficient notice to the licensee for any official 

communication to the licensee by the board or the department except when other service is required 

under s. 456.076. 

History.—s. 97, ch. 97-261; s. 39, ch. 98-166; s. 62, ch. 2000-160; s. 13, ch. 2001-277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.71 7. 

456.O36Licenses; active and inactive status; delinquency.— 

(1 )A licensee may practice a profession only if the licensee has an active status license. A licensee 

who practices a profession with an inactive status license, a retired status license, or a delinquent 

license is in violation of this section and s. 456.072, and the board, or the department if there is no 

board, may impose discipline on the licensee. 

(2)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall permit a licensee to choose, at the 

time of licensure renewal, an active, inactive, or retired status. 

(3)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall by rule impose a fee for renewal of an 

active or inactive status license. The renewal fee for an inactive status license may not exceed the fee 

for an active status license. 

(4)Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a licensee may change licensure 

status at any time. 

(a)Active status licensees choosing inactive status at the time of license renewal must pay the 

inactive status renewal fee, and, if applicable, the delinquency fee and the fee to change licensure 



status. Active status licensees choosing inactive status at any other time than at the time of license 

renewal must pay the fee to change licensure status. 

(b)An active status licensee or an inactive status licensee who chooses retired status at the time of 

license renewal must pay the retired status fee, which may not exceed $50 as established by rule of 

the board or the department if there is no board. An active status licensee or inactive status licensee 

who chooses retired status at any time other than at the time of license renewal must pay the retired 

status fee plus a change-of-status fee. 

(c)An inactive status licensee may change to active status at any time, if the licensee meets all 

requirements for active status. Inactive status licensees choosing active status at the time of license 

renewal must pay the active status renewal fee, any applicable reactivation fees as set by the board, 

or the department if there is no board, and, if applicable, the delinquency fee and the fee to change 

licensure status. Inactive status licensees choosing active status at any other time than at the time of 

license renewal must pay the difference between the inactive status renewal fee and the active status 

renewal fee, if any exists, any applicable reactivation fees as set by the board, or the department if 

there is no board, and the fee to change licensure status. 

(5)A licensee must apply with a complete application, as defined by rule of the board, or the 

department if there is no board, to renew an active or inactive status license before the license 

expires. If a licensee fails to renew before the license expires, the license becomes delinquent in the 

license cycle following expiration. 

(6)A delinquent licensee must affirmatively apply with a complete application, as defined by rule 

of the board, or the department if there is no board, for active or inactive status during the licensure 

cycle in which a licensee becomes delinquent. Failure by a delinquent licensee to become active or 

inactive before the expiration of the current licensure cycle renders the license null without any 

further action by the board or the department. Any subsequent licensure shall be as a result of 

applying for and meeting all requirements imposed on an applicant for new licensure. 

(7)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall by rule impose an additional 

delinquency fee, not to exceed the biennial renewal fee for an active status license, on a delinquent 

licensee when such licensee applies for active or inactive status. 

(8)Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall by rule impose an additional fee, not 

to exceed the biennial renewal fee for an active status license, for processing a licensee's request to 

change licensure status at any time other than at the beginning of a licensure cycle. 

(9)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may by rule impose reasonable conditions, 

excluding full reexamination but including part of a national examination or a special purpose 

examination to assess current competency, necessary to ensure that a licensee who has been on 

inactive status for more than two consecutive biennial licensure cycles and who applies for active 

status can practice with the care and skill sufficient to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 

public. Reactivation requirements may differ depending on the length of time licensees are inactive. 



The costs to meet reactivation requirements shall be borne by licensees requesting reactivation. 

(10)Each board, or the department if there is no board, may by rule impose reasonable conditions, 

including full reexamination to assess current competency, in order to ensure that a licensee who has 

been on retired status for more than 5 years, or a licensee from another state who has not been in 

active practice within the past 5 years, and who applies for active status is able to practice with the 

care and skill sufficient to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public. Requirements for 

reactivation of a license may differ depending on the length of time a licensee has been retired. 

(11 )Before reactivation, an inactive status licensee or a delinquent licensee who was inactive prior 

to becoming delinquent must meet the same continuing education requirements, if any, imposed on an 

active status licensee for all biennial licensure periods in which the licensee was inactive or 

delinquent. 

(12)Before the license of a retired status licensee is reactivated, the licensee must meet the same 

requirements for continuing education, if any, and pay any renewal fees imposed on an active status 

licensee for all biennial licensure periods during which the licensee was on retired status. 

(13)The status or a change in status of a licensee does not alter in any way the right of the board, 

or of the department if there is no board, to impose discipline or to enforce discipline previously 

imposed on a licensee for acts or omissions committed by the licensee while holding a license, whether 

active, inactive, retired, or delinquent. 

(14)A person who has been denied renewal of licensure, certification, or registration under s. 

456.0635(3) may regain licensure, certification, or registration only by meeting the qualifications and 

completing the application process for initial licensure as defined by the board, or the department if 

there is no board. However, a person who was denied renewal of licensure, certification, or 

registration under s. 24, chapter 2009-223, Laws of Florida, between July 1, 2009, and June 30, 2012, 

is not required to retake and pass examinations applicable for initial licensure, certification, or 

registration. 

(15)This section does not apply to a business establishment registered, permitted, or licensed by 

the department to do business. 

(16)The board, or the department when there is no board, may adopt rules pursuant to ss. 

120.536(1) and 120.54 as necessary to implement this section. 

History.—s. 95, ch. 97-261; s. 63, ch. 2000-160; s. 31, ch. 2000-318; s. 3, ch. 2005-62; s. 2, ch. 2012-64. 

Note.—Former s. 455.711. 

456.O37Business establishments; requirements for active status licenses; delinquency; 

discipline; applicability.— 

(1 )A business establishment regulated by the Division of Medical Quality Assurance pursuant to this 

chapter may provide regulated services only if the business establishment has an active status license. 

A business establishment that provides regulated services without an active status license is in violation 



of this section and s. 456.072, and the board, or the department if there is no board, may impose 

discipline on the business establishment. 

(2)A business establishment must apply with a complete application, as defined by rule of the 

board, or the department if there is no board, to renew an active status license before the license 

expires. If a business establishment fails to renew before the license expires, the license becomes 

delinquent, except as otherwise provided in statute, in the license cycle following expiration. 

(3)A delinquent business establishment must apply with a complete application, as defined by rule 

of the board, or the department if there is no board, for active status within 6 months after becoming 

delinquent. Failure of a delinquent business establishment to renew the license within the 6 months 

after the expiration date of the license renders the license null without any further action by the board 

or the department. Any subsequent licensure shall be as a result of applying for and meeting all 

requirements imposed on a business establishment for new licensure. 

(4)The status or a change in status of a business establishment license does not alter in any way 

the right of the board, or of the department if there is no board, to impose discipline or to enforce 

discipline previously imposed on a business establishment for acts or omissions committed by the 

business establishment while holding a license, whether active or null. 

(5)This section applies to any business establishment registered, permitted, or licensed by the 

department to do business. Business establishments include, but are not limited to, dental 

laboratories, electrology facilities, massage establishments, pharmacies, and pain-management clinics 

required to be registered under s. 458.3265 or s. 459.0137. 

History.—s. 89, ch. 99-397; s. 64, ch. 2000-160; s. 27, ch. 2000-318; s. 102, ch. 2000-349; s. 1, ch. 2010-211. 

Note.—Former s. 455.712. 

456.O38Renewal and cancellation notices.— 

(1 )At least 90 days before the end of a licensure cycle, the department shall: 

(a)Forward a licensure renewal notification to an active or inactive status licensee at the 

licensee's last known address of record with the department. 

(b)Forward a notice of pending cancellation of licensure to a delinquent licensee at the licensee's 

last known address of record with the department. 

(2)Each licensure renewal notification and each notice of pending cancellation of licensure must 

state conspicuously that a licensee who remains on inactive status for more than two consecutive 

biennial licensure cycles and who wishes to reactivate the license may be required to demonstrate the 

competency to resume active practice by sitting for a special purpose examination or by completing 

other reactivation requirements, as defined by rule of the board or the department if there is no 

board. 

History.—s. 96, ch. 97-261; s. 65, ch. 2000-160; s. 33, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.714. 



456.O39Designated health care professionals; information required for licensure.— 

(1 )Each person who applies for initial licensure as a physician under chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 460, or chapter 461, except a person applying for registration pursuant to ss. 458.345 and 

459.021, must, at the time of application, and each physician who applies for license renewal under 

chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, or chapter 461, except a person registered pursuant to ss. 

458.345 and 459.021, must, in conjunction with the renewal of such license and under procedures 

adopted by the Department of Health, and in addition to any other information that may be required 

from the applicant, furnish the following information to the Department of Health: 

(a)1 .The name of each medical school that the applicant has attended, with the dates of 

attendance and the date of graduation, and a description of all graduate medical education completed 

by the applicant, excluding any coursework taken to satisfy medical licensure continuing education 

requirements. 

2.The name of each hospital at which the applicant has privileges. 

3.The address at which the applicant will primarily conduct his or her practice. 

4.Any certification that the applicant has received from a specialty board that is recognized by the 

board to which the applicant is applying. 

5.The year that the applicant began practicing medicine. 

6.Any appointment to the faculty of a medical school which the applicant currently holds and an 

indication as to whether the applicant has had the responsibility for graduate medical education within 

the most recent 10 years. 

7.A description of any criminal offense of which the applicant has been found guilty, regardless of 

whether adjudication of guilt was withheld, or to which the applicant has pled guilty or nob 

contendere. A criminal offense committed in another jurisdiction which would have been a felony or 

misdemeanor if committed in this state must be reported. If the applicant indicates that a criminal 

offense is under appeal and submits a copy of the notice for appeal of that criminal offense, the 

department must state that the criminal offense is under appeal if the criminal offense is reported in 

the applicant's profile. If the applicant indicates to the department that a criminal offense is under 

appeal, the applicant must, upon disposition of the appeal, submit to the department a copy of the 

final written order of disposition. 

8.A description of any final disciplinary action taken within the previous 10 years against the 

applicant by the agency regulating the profession that the applicant is or has been licensed to practice, 

whether in this state or in any other jurisdiction, by a specialty board that is recognized by the 

American Board of Medical Specialties, the American Osteopathic Association, or a similar national 

organization, or by a licensed hospital, health maintenance organization, prepaid health clinic, 

ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home. Disciplinary action includes resignation from or 

nonrenewal of medical staff membership or the restriction of privileges at a licensed hospital, health 



maintenance organization, prepaid health clinic, ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home taken in 

lieu of or in settlement of a pending disciplinary case related to competence or character. If the 

applicant indicates that the disciplinary action is under appeal and submits a copy of the document 

initiating an appeal of the disciplinary action, the department must state that the disciplinary action is 

under appeal if the disciplinary action is reported in the applicant's profile. 

9.Relevant professional qualifications as defined by the applicable board. 

(b)In addition to the information required under paragraph (a), each applicant who seeks licensure 

under chapter 458, chapter 459, or chapter 461, and who has practiced previously in this state or in 

another jurisdiction or a foreign country must provide the information required of licensees under 

those chapters pursuant to s. 456.049. An applicant for licensure under chapter 460 who has practiced 

previously in this state or in another jurisdiction or a foreign country must provide the same 

information as is required of licensees under chapter 458, pursuant to s. 456.049. 

(2)Before the issuance of the licensure renewal notice required by s. 456.038, the Department of 

Health shall send a notice to each person licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, or 

chapter 461, at the licensee's last known address of record with the department, regarding the 

requirements for information to be submitted by those practitioners pursuant to this section in 

conjunction with the renewal of such license and under procedures adopted by the department. 

(3)Each person who has submitted information pursuant to subsection (1) must update that 

information in writing by notifying the Department of Health within 45 days after the occurrence of an 

event or the attainment of a status that is required to be reported by subsection (1). Failure to comply 

with the requirements of this subsection to update and submit information constitutes a ground for 

disciplinary action under each respective licensing chapter and s. 456.072(1 )(k). For failure to comply 

with the requirements of this subsection to update and submit information, the department or board, 

as appropriate, may: 

(a)Refuse to issue a license to any person applying for initial licensure who fails to submit and 

update the required information. 

(b)Issue a citation to any licensee who fails to submit and update the required information and may 

fine the licensee up to $50 for each day that the licensee is not in compliance with this subsection. The 

citation must clearly state that the licensee may choose, in lieu of accepting the citation, to follow the 

procedure under s. 456.073. If the licensee disputes the matter in the citation, the procedures set 

forth in s. 456.073 must be followed. However, if the licensee does not dispute the matter in the 

citation with the department within 30 days after the citation is served, the citation becomes a final 

order and constitutes discipline. Service of a citation may be made by personal service or certified 

mail, restricted delivery, to the subject at the licensee's last known address. 

(4)(a)An applicant for initial licensure must submit a set of fingerprints to the Department of 

Health in accordancewith s. 458.311,s. 458.3115, s. 458.3124, s. 458.313, s. 459.0055, s.460.406, or 

s. 461 .006. 



(b)An applicant for renewed licensure must submit a set of fingerprints for the initial renewal of 

his or her license after January 1, 2000, to the agency regulating that profession in accordance with 

procedures established under s. 458.319, s. 459.008, s. 460.407, or s. 461 .007. 

(c)The Department of Health shall submit the fingerprints provided by an applicant for initial 

licensure to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement for a statewide criminal history check, and 

the Florida Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation for a national criminal history check of the applicant. The department shall submit the 

fingerprints provided by an applicant for a renewed license to the Florida Department of Law 

Enforcement for a statewide criminal history check, and the Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal history 

check for the initial renewal of the applicant's license after January 1, 2000; for any subsequent 

renewal of the applicant's license, the department shall submit the required information for a 

statewide criminal history check of the applicant. 

(5)Each person who is required to submit information pursuant to this section may submit 

additional information. Such information may include, but is not limited to: 

(a)Information regarding publications in peer-reviewed medical literature within the previous 10 

years. 

(b)Information regarding professional or community service activities or awards. 

(c)Languages, other than English, used by the applicant to communicate with patients and 

identification of any translating service that may be available at the place where the applicant 

primarily conducts his or her practice. 

(d)An indication of whether the person participates in the Medicaid program. 

History.—s. 127, ch. 97-237; s. 3, ch. 97-273; ss. 8, 34, ch. 98-166; s. 60, ch. 99-397; s. 66, ch. 2000-160; s. 21, ch. 

2000-318; s. 74, ch. 2001 -62; s. 13, ch. 2003-41 6; s. 57, ch. 2010-114. 

Note.—Former s. 455.565. 

456.O39lAdvanced registered nurse practitioners; information required for certification.— 

(1)(a)Each person who applies for initial certification under s. 464.012 must, at the time of 

application, and each person certified under s. 464.012 who applies for certification renewal must, in 

conjunction with the renewal of such certification and under procedures adopted by the Department of 

Health, and in addition to any other information that may be required from the applicant, furnish the 

following information to the Department of Health: 

1 .The name of each school or training program that the applicant has attended, with the months 

and years of attendance and the month and year of graduation, and a description of all graduate 

professional education completed by the applicant, excluding any coursework taken to satisfy 

continuing education requirements. 

2.The name of each location at which the applicant practices. 



3.The address at which the applicant will primarily conduct his or her practice. 

4.Any certification or designation that the applicant has received from a specialty or certification 

board that is recognized or approved by the regulatory board or department to which the applicant is 

applying. 

5.The year that the applicant received initial certification and began practicing the profession in 

any jurisdiction and the year that the applicant received initial certification in this state. 

6.Any appointment which the applicant currently holds to the faculty of a school related to the 

profession and an indication as to whether the applicant has had the responsibility for graduate 

education within the most recent 10 years. 

7.A description of any criminal offense of which the applicant has been found guilty, regardless of 

whether adjudication of guilt was withheld, or to which the applicant has pled guilty or nob 

contendere. A criminal offense committed in another jurisdiction which would have been a felony or 

misdemeanor if committed in this state must be reported. If the applicant indicates that a criminal 

offense is under appeal and submits a copy of the notice for appeal of that criminal offense, the 

department must state that the criminal offense is under appeal if the criminal offense is reported in 

the applicant's profile. If the applicant indicates to the department that a criminal offense is under 

appeal, the applicant must, within 1 5 days after the disposition of the appeal, submit to the 

department a copy of the final written order of disposition. 

8.A description of any final disciplinary action taken within the previous 10 years against the 

applicant by a licensing or regulatory body in any jurisdiction, by a specialty board that is recognized 

by the board or department, or by a licensed hospital, health maintenance organization, prepaid 

health clinic, ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home. Disciplinary action includes resignation from 

or nonrenewal of staff membership or the restriction of privileges at a licensed hospital, health 

maintenance organization, prepaid health clinic, ambulatory surgical center, or nursing home taken in 

lieu of or in settlement of a pending disciplinary case related to competence or character. If the 

applicant indicates that the disciplinary action is under appeal and submits a copy of the document 

initiating an appeal of the disciplinary action, the department must state that the disciplinary action is 

under appeal if the disciplinary action is reported in the applicant's profile. 

(b)ln addition to the information required under paragraph (a), each applicant for initial 

certification or certification renewal must provide the information required of licensees pursuant to s. 

456.049. 

(2)The Department of Health shall send a notice to each person certified under s. 464.012 at the 

certificateholder's last known address of record regarding the requirements for information to be 

submitted by advanced registered nurse practitioners pursuant to this section in conjunction with the 

renewal of such certificate. 

(3)Each person certified under s. 464.012 who has submitted information pursuant to subsection (1) 

must update that information in writing by notifying the Department of Health within 45 days after the 



occurrence of an event or the attainment of a status that is required to be reported by subsection (1). 

Failure to comply with the requirements of this subsection to update and submit information 

constitutes a ground for disciplinary action under chapter 464 and s. 456.072(1 )(k). For failure to 

comply with the requirements of this subsection to update and submit information, the department or 

board, as appropriate, may: 

(a)Refuse to issue a certificate to any person applying for initial certification who fails to submit 

and update the required information. 

(b)Issue a citation to any certificateholder who fails to submit and update the required information 

and may fine the certificateholder up to $50 for each day that the certificateholder is not in 

compliance with this subsection. The citation must clearly state that the certificateholder may choose, 

in lieu of accepting the citation, to follow the procedure under s. 456.073. If the certificateholder 

disputes the matter in the citation, the procedures set forth in s. 456.073 must be followed. However, 

if the certificateholder does not dispute the matter in the citation with the department within 30 days 

after the citation is served, the citation becomes a final order and constitutes discipline. Service of a 

citation may be made by personal service or certified mail, restricted delivery, to the subject at the 

certificateholder's last known address. 

(4)(a)An applicant for initial certification under s. 464.012 must submit a set of fingerprints to the 

Department of Health on a form and under procedures specified by the department, along with 

payment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by the Department of Health for a national criminal 

history check of the applicant. 

(b)An applicant for renewed certification who has not previously submitted a set of fingerprints to 

the Department of Health for purposes of certification must submit a set of fingerprints to the 

department as a condition of the initial renewal of his or her certificate after the effective date of this 

section. The applicant must submit the fingerprints on a form and under procedures specified by the 

department, along with payment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by the Department of Health 

for a national criminal history check. For subsequent renewals, the applicant for renewed certification 

must only submit information necessary to conduct a statewide criminal history check, along with 

payment in an amount equal to the costs incurred by the Department of Health for a statewide 

criminal history check. 

(c)1 .The Department of Health shall submit the fingerprints provided by an applicant for initial 

certification to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement for a statewide criminal history check, and 

the Florida Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation for a national criminal history check of the applicant. 

2.The department shall submit the fingerprints provided by an applicant for the initial renewal of 

certification to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement for a statewide criminal history check, and 

the Florida Department of Law Enforcement shall forward the fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation for a national criminal history check for the initial renewal of the applicant's certificate 



after the effective date of this section. 

3.For any subsequent renewal of the applicant's certificate, the department shall submit the 

required information for a statewide criminal history check of the applicant to the Florida Department 

of Law Enforcement. 

(d)Any applicant for initial certification or renewal of certification as an advanced registered nurse 

practitioner who submits to the Department of Health a set of fingerprints and information required for 

the criminal history check required under this section shall not be required to provide a subsequent set 

of fingerprints or other duplicate information required for a criminal history check to the Agency for 

Health Care Administration, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Children and 

Family Services for employment or licensure with such agency or department, if the applicant has 

undergone a criminal history check as a condition of initial certification or renewal of certification as 

an advanced registered nurse practitioner with the Department of Health, notwithstanding any other 

provision of law to the contrary. In lieu of such duplicate submission, the Agency for Health Care 

Administration, the Department of Juvenile Justice, and the Department of Children and Family 

Services shall obtain criminal history information for employment or licensure of persons certified 

under s. 464.012 by such agency or department from the Department of Health's health care 

practitioner credentialing system. 

(5)Each person who is required to submit information pursuant to this section may submit 

additional information to the Department of Health. Such information may include, but is not limited 

to: 

(a)Information regarding publications in peer-reviewed professional literature within the previous 

10 years. 

(b)Information regarding professional or community service activities or awards. 

(c)Languages, other than English, used by the applicant to communicate with patients or clients 

and identification of any translating service that may be available at the place where the applicant 

primarily conducts his or her practice. 

(d)An indication of whether the person participates in the Medicaid program. 

History.—s. 152, ch. 2000-318. 

456.O392Prescription labeling.— 

(1 )A prescription written by a practitioner who is authorized under the laws of this state to write 

prescriptions for drugs that are not listed as controlled substances in chapter 893 but who is not 

eligible for a federal Drug Enforcement Administration number shall include that practitioner's name 

and professional license number. The pharmacist or dispensing practitioner must include the 

practitioner's name on the container of the drug that is dispensed. A pharmacist shall be permitted, 

upon verification by the prescriber, to document any information required by this section. 

(2)A prescription for a drug that is not listed as a controlled substance in chapter 893 which is 



written by an advanced registered nurse practitioner certified under s. 464.012 is presumed, subject to 

rebuttal, to be valid and within the parameters of the prescriptive authority delegated by a 

practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or chapter 466. 

(3)A prescription for a drug that is not listed as a controlled substance in chapter 893 which is 

written by a physician assistant licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 is presumed, subject to 

rebuttal, to be valid and within the parameters of the prescriptive authority delegated by the physician 

assistant's supervising physician. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2004-8. 

456.041 Practitioner profile; creation.— 

(1)(a)The Department of Health shall compile the information submitted pursuant to s. 456.039 

into a practitioner profile of the applicant submitting the information, except that the Department of 

Health shall develop a format to compile uniformly any information submitted under s. 456.039(4)(b). 

Beginning July 1, 2001, the Department of Health may compile the information submitted pursuant to 

s. 456.0391 into a practitioner profile of the applicant submitting the information. The protocol 

submitted pursuant to s. 464.012(3) must be included in the practitioner profile of the advanced 

registered nurse practitioner. 

(b)Beginning July 1, 2005, the department shall verify the information submitted by the applicant 

under s. 456.039 concerning disciplinary history and medical malpractice claims at the time of initial 

licensure and license renewal using the National Practitioner Data Bank. The physician profiles shall 

reflect the disciplinary action and medical malpractice claims as reported by the National Practitioner 

Data Bank, and shall include information relating to liability and disciplinary actions obtained as a 

result of a search of the National Practitioner Data Bank. 

(c)Within 30 calendar days after receiving an update of information required for the practitioner's 

profile, the department shall update the practitioner's profile in accordance with the requirements of 

subsection (8). 

(2)On the profile published under subsection (1), the department shall indicate if the information 

provided under s. 456.039(1 )(a)7. or s. 456.0391 (1 )(a)7. is or is not corroborated by a criminal history 

check conducted according to this subsection. The department, or the board having regulatory 

authority over the practitioner acting on behalf of the department, shall investigate any information 

received by the department or the board. 

(3)The Department of Health shall include in each practitioner's practitioner profile that criminal 

information that directly relates to the practitioner's ability to competently practice his or her 

profession. The department must include in each practitioner's practitioner profile the following 

statement: "The criminal history information, if any exists, may be incomplete; federal criminal history 

information is not available to the public." The department shall provide in each practitioner profile, 

for every final disciplinary action taken against the practitioner, an easy-to-read narrative description 



that explains the administrative complaint filed against the practitioner and the final disciplinary 

action imposed on the practitioner. The department shall include a hyperlink to each final order listed 

in its website report of dispositions of recent disciplinary actions taken against practitioners. 

(4)The Department of Health shall include, with respect to a practitioner licensed under chapter 

458 or chapter 459, a statement of how the practitioner has elected to comply with the financial 

responsibility requirements of s. 458.320 or s. 459.0085. The department shall include, with respect to 

practitioners subject to s. 456.048, a statement of how the practitioner has elected to comply with the 

financial responsibility requirements of that section. The department shall include, with respect to 

practitioners licensed under chapter 461, information relating to liability actions which has been 

reported under s. 456.049 or s. 627.912 within the previous 10 years for any paid claim that exceeds 

$5,000. The department shall include, with respect to practitioners licensed under chapter 458 or 

chapter 459, information relating to liability actions which has been reported under ss. 456.049 and 

627.912 within the previous 10 years for any paid claim that exceeds $100,000. Such claims information 

shall be reported in the context of comparing an individual practitioner's claims to the experience of 

other practitioners within the same specialty, or profession if the practitioner is not a specialist. The 

department must provide a hyperlink in such practitioner's profile to all such comparison reports. If 

information relating to a liability action is included in a practitioner's practitioner profile, the profile 

must also include the following statement: "Settlement of a claim may occur for a variety of reasons 

that do not necessarily reflect negatively on the professional competence or conduct of the 

practitioner. A payment in settlement of a medical malpractice action or claim should not be construed 

as creating a presumption that medical malpractice has occurred." 

(5)The Department of Health shall include the date of a hospital or ambulatory surgical center 

disciplinary action taken by a licensed hospital or an ambulatory surgical center, in accordance with 

the requirements of s. 395.0193, in the practitioner profile. The department shall state whether the 

action related to professional competence and whether it related to the delivery of services to a 

patient. 

(6)The Department of Health shall provide in each practitioner profile for every physician or 

advanced registered nurse practitioner terminated for cause from participating in the Medicaid 

program, pursuant to s. 409.913, or sanctioned by the Medicaid program a statement that the 

practitioner has been terminated from participating in the Florida Medicaid program or sanctioned by 

the Medicaid program. 

(7)The Department of Health may include in the practitioner's practitioner profile any other 

information that is a public record of any governmental entity and that relates to a practitioner's 

ability to competently practice his or her profession. 

(8)Upon the completion of a practitioner profile under this section, the Department of Health shall 

furnish the practitioner who is the subject of the profile a copy of it for review and verification. The 

practitioner has a period of 30 days in which to review and verify the contents of the profile and to 



correct any factual inaccuracies in it. The Department of Health shall make the profile available to the 

public at the end of the 30-day period regardless of whether the practitioner has provided verification 

of the profile content. A practitioner shall be subject to a fine of up to $100 per day for failure to 

verify the profile contents and to correct any factual errors in his or her profile within the 30-day 

period. The department shall make the profiles available to the public through the World Wide Web 

and other commonly used means of distribution. The department must include the following 

statement, in boldface type, in each profile that has not been reviewed by the practitioner to which it 

applies: "The practitioner has not verified the information contained in this profile." 

(9)The Department of Health must provide in each profile an easy-to-read explanation of any 

disciplinary action taken and the reason the sanction or sanctions were imposed. 

(10)The Department of Health may provide one link in each profile to a practitioner's professional 

website if the practitioner requests that such a link be included in his or her profile. 

(11 )Making a practitioner profile available to the public under this section does not constitute 

agency action for which a hearing under s. 120.57 may be sought. 

History.—s. 128, ch. 97-237; s. 4, ch. 97-273; s. 35, ch. 98-166; s. 77, ch. 99-397; s. 111, ch. 2000-153; s. 67, ch. 2000- 

160; ss. 22, 153, ch. 2000-318; s. 14, ch. 2003-416; s. 7, ch. 2005-62; s. 1, ch. 2005-266; s. 3, ch. 2006-251; s. 22, ch. 

2009-223; s. 103, ch. 201 0-5. 

Note.—Former s. 455.5651. 

456.O42Practitioner profiles; update.—A practitioner must submit updates of required 

information within 15 days after the final activity that renders such information a fact. The 

Department of Health shall update each practitioner's practitioner profile periodically. An updated 

profile is subject to the same requirements as an original profile. 

History.—s. 129, ch. 97-237; s. 5, ch. 97-273; s. 68, ch. 2000-160; s. 15, ch. 2003-41 6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.5652. 

456.O43Practitioner profiles; data storage.—Effective upon this act becoming a law, the 

Department of Health must develop or contract for a computer system to accommodate the new data 

collection and storage requirements under this act pending the development and operation of a 

computer system by the Department of Health for handling the collection, input, revision, and update 

of data submitted by physicians as a part of their initial licensure or renewal to be compiled into 

individual practitioner profiles. The Department of Health must incorporate any data required by this 

act into the computer system used in conjunction with the regulation of health care professions under 

its jurisdiction. The Department of Health is authorized to contract with and negotiate any interagency 

agreement necessary to develop and implement the practitioner profiles. The Department of Health 

shall have access to any information or record maintained by the Agency for Health Care 

Administration, including any information or record that is otherwise confidential and exempt from the 

provisions of chapter 119 and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution, so that the Department of 





require that all health care practitioners licensed under the respective board, and the Board of 

Medicine and the Board of Osteopathic Medicine shall, by rule, require that all anesthesiologist 

assistants licensed pursuant to s. 458.3475 or s. 459.023, and the Board of Nursing shall, by rule, 

require that advanced registered nurse practitioners certified under s. 464.012, and the department 

shall, by rule, require that midwives maintain medical malpractice insurance or provide proof of 

financial responsibility in an amount and in a manner determined by the board or department to be 

sufficient to cover claims arising out of the rendering of or failure to render professional care and 

services in this state. 

(2)The board or department may grant exemptions upon application by practitioners meeting any 

of the following criteria: 

(a)Any person licensed under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s. 459.023, chapter 460, chapter 461, s. 

464.012, chapter 466, or chapter 467 who practices exclusively as an officer, employee, or agent of the 

Federal Government or of the state or its agencies or its subdivisions. For the purposes of this 

subsection, an agent of the state, its agencies, or its subdivisions is a person who is eligible for 

coverage under any self-insurance or insurance program authorized by the provisions of s. 768.28(16) or 

who is a volunteer under s. 110.501(1). 

(b)Any person whose license or certification has become inactive under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, 

s. 459.023, chapter 460, chapter 461, part I of chapter 464, chapter 466, or chapter 467 and who is not 

practicing in this state. Any person applying for reactivation of a license must show either that such 

licensee maintained tail insurance coverage which provided liability coverage for incidents that 

occurred on or after October 1, 1993, or the initial date of licensure in this state, whichever is later, 

and incidents that occurred before the date on which the license became inactive; or such licensee 

must submit an affidavit stating that such licensee has no unsatisfied medical malpractice judgments or 

settlements at the time of application for reactivation. 

(c)Any person holding a limited license pursuant to s. 456.015, and practicing under the scope of 

such limited license. 

(d)Any person licensed or certified under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s. 459.023, chapter 460, 

chapter 461, s. 464.012, chapter 466, or chapter 467 who practices only in conjunction with his or her 

teaching duties at an accredited school or in its main teaching hospitals. Such person may engage in 

the practice of medicine to the extent that such practice is incidental to and a necessary part of duties 

in connection with the teaching position in the school. 

(e)Any person holding an active license or certification under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s. 459.023, 

chapter 460, chapter 461, s. 464.012, chapter 466, or chapter 467 who is not practicing in this state. If 

such person initiates or resumes practice in this state, he or she must notify the department of such 

activity. 

(f)Any person who can demonstrate to the board or department that he or she has no malpractice 

exposure in the state. 



(3)Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the financial responsibility requirements of ss. 

458.320 and 459.0085 shall continue to apply to practitioners licensed under those chapters, except for 

anesthesiologist assistants licensed pursuant to s. 458.3475 or s. 459.023 who must meet the 

requirements of this section. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 93-41; S. 193, ch. 97-103; s. 90, ch. 97-261; s. 266, ch. 98-166; s. 88, ch. 99-397; S. 73, ch. 2000- 

160; s. 116, ch. 2000-318; S. 73, ch. 2004-5; S. 1, ch. 2004-303. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2456; s. 455.694. 

456.O49Health care practitioners; reports on professional liability claims and actions.—Any 

practitioner of medicine licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 458, practitioner of osteopathic 

medicine licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 459, podiatric physician licensed pursuant to 

the provisions of chapter 461, or dentist licensed pursuant to the provisions of chapter 466 shall report 

to the Office of Insurance Regulation any claim or action for damages for personal injury alleged to 

have been caused by error, omission, or negligence in the performance of such licensee's professional 

services or based on a claimed performance of professional services without consent pursuant to s. 

627.912. 

History.—s. 13, ch. 88-1; s. 7, ch. 91-140; s. 309, ch. 96-406; s. 91, ch. 97-261; s. 193, ch. 98-166; s. 74, ch. 2000-160; 

s. 16, ch. 2003-416. 

Note.—Former s. 455.247; s. 455.697. 

456.O5lReports of professional liability actions; bankruptcies; Department of Health's 

responsibility to provide.— 

(1 )The report of a claim or action for damages for personal injury which is required to be provided 

to the Department of Health under s. 456.049 or s. 627.912 is public information except for the name 

of the claimant or injured person, which remains confidential as provided in s. 627.912(2)(e). The 

Department of Health shall, upon request, make such report available to any person. The department 

shall make such report available as a part of the practitioner's profile within 30 calendar days after 

receipt. 

(2)Any information in the possession of the Department of Health which relates to a bankruptcy 

proceeding by a practitioner of medicine licensed under chapter 458, a practitioner of osteopathic 

medicine licensed under chapter 459, a podiatric physician licensed under chapter 461, or a dentist 

licensed under chapter 466 is public information. The Department of Health shall, upon request, make 

such information available to any person. The department shall make such report available as a part of 

the practitioner's profile within 30 calendar days after receipt. 

History.—s. 146, ch. 97-237; s. 22, ch. 97-273; ss. 38, 194, ch. 98-166; s. 75, ch. 2000-160; s. 17, ch. 2003-41 6; s. 74, 

ch. 2004-5. 

Note.—Former s. 455.698. 



456.O52Disclosure of financial interest by production.— 

(1 )A health care provider shall not refer a patient to an entity in which such provider is an investor 

unless, prior to the referral, the provider furnishes the patient with a written disclosure form, 

informing the patient of: 

(a)The existence of the investment interest. 

(b)The name and address of each applicable entity in which the referring health care provider is an 

investor. 

(c)The patient's right to obtain the items or services for which the patient has been referred at the 

location or from the provider or supplier of the patient's choice, including the entity in which the 

referring provider is an investor. 

(d)The names and addresses of at least two alternative sources of such items or services available 

to the patient. 

(2)The physician or health care provider shall post a copy of the disclosure forms in a conspicuous 

public place in his or her office. 

(3)A violation of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 

provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. In addition to any other penalties or remedies provided, a 

violation of this section shall be grounds for disciplinary action by the respective board. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 86-31; s. 84, ch. 91-224; s. 13, ch. 92-178; s. 92, ch. 97-261; s. 76, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.25; s. 455.701. 

456.O53Financial arrangements between referring health care providers and providers of 

health care services.— 

(1)SHORT TITLE.—This section may be cited as the "Patient Self-Referral Act of 1992." 

(2)LEGISLATIVE INTENT.—It is recognized by the Legislature that the referral of a patient by a 

health care provider to a provider of health care services in which the referring health care provider 

has an investment interest represents a potential conflict of interest. The Legislature finds these 

referral practices may limit or eliminate competitive alternatives in the health care services market, 

may result in overutilization of health care services, may increase costs to the health care system, and 

may adversely affect the quality of health care. The Legislature also recognizes, however, that it may 

be appropriate for providers to own entities providing health care services, and to refer patients to 

such entities, as long as certain safeguards are present in the arrangement. It is the intent of the 

Legislature to provide guidance to health care providers regarding prohibited patient referrals between 

health care providers and entities providing health care services and to protect the people of Florida 

from unnecessary and costly health care expenditures. 

(3)DEFINITIONS.—For the purpose of this section, the word, phrase, or term: 

(a)"Board" means any of the following boards relating to the respective professions: the Board of 

Medicine as created in s. 458.307; the Board of Osteopathic Medicine as created in s. 459.004; the 



Board of Chiropractic Medicine as created in s. 460.404; the Board of Podiatric Medicine as created in 

s. 461 .004; the Board of Optometry as created in s. 463.003; the Board of Pharmacy as created in s. 

465.004; and the Board of Dentistry as created in s. 466.004. 

(b)"Comprehensive rehabilitation services" means services that are provided by health care 

professionals licensed under part I or part III of chapter 468 or chapter 486 to provide speech, 

occupational, or physical therapy services on an outpatient or ambulatory basis. 

(c)"Designated health services" means, for purposes of this section, clinical laboratory services, 

physical therapy services, comprehensive rehabilitative services, diagnostic-imaging services, and 

radiation therapy services. 

(d)"Diagnostic imaging services" means magnetic resonance imaging, nuclear medicine, 

angiography, arteriography, computed tomography, positron emission tomography, digital vascular 

imaging, bronchography, lymphangiography, splenography, ultrasound, EEG, EKG, nerve conduction 

studies, and evoked potentials. 

(e)"Direct supervision" means supervision by a physician who is present in the office suite and 

immediately available to provide assistance and direction throughout the time services are being 

performed. 

(f)"Entity" means any individual, partnership, firm, corporation, or other business entity. 

(g)"Fair market value" means value in arms length transactions, consistent with the general 

market value, and, with respect to rentals or leases, the value of rental property for general 

commercial purposes, not taking into account its intended use, and, in the case of a lease of space, not 

adjusted to reflect the additional value the prospective lessee or lessor would attribute to the 

proximity or convenience to the lessor where the lessor is a potential source of patient referrals to the 

lessee. 

(h)"Group practice" means a group of two or more health care providers legally organized as a 

partnership, professional corporation, or similar association: 

1 .In which each health care provider who is a member of the group provides substantially the full 

range of services which the health care provider routinely provides, including medical care, 

consultation, diagnosis, or treatment, through the joint use of shared office space, facilities, 

equipment, and personnel; 

2.For which substantially all of the services of the health care providers who are members of the 

group are provided through the group and are billed in the name of the group and amounts so received 

are treated as receipts of the group; and 

3.In which the overhead expenses of and the income from the practice are distributed in 

accordance with methods previously determined by members of the group. 

(i)"Health care provider" means any physician licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 

460, or chapter 461, or any health care provider licensed under chapter 463 or chapter 466. 

(j)"Immediate family member" means a health care provider's spouse, child, child's spouse, 



grandchild, grandchild's spouse, parent, parent-in-law, or sibling. 

(k)"Investment interest" means an equity or debt security issued by an entity, including, without 

limitation, shares of stock in a corporation, units or other interests in a partnership, bonds, 

debentures, notes, or other equity interests or debt instruments. The following investment interests 

shall be excepted from this definition: 

1 .An investment interest in an entity that is the sole provider of designated health services in a 

rural area; 

2.An investment interest in notes, bonds, debentures, or other debt instruments issued by an 

entity which provides designated health services, as an integral part of a plan by such entity to acquire 

such investor's equity investment interest in the entity, provided that the interest rate is consistent 

with fair market value, and that the maturity date of the notes, bonds, debentures, or other debt 

instruments issued by the entity to the investor is not later than October 1, 1996. 

3.An investment interest in real property resulting in a landlord-tenant relationship between the 

health care provider and the entity in which the equity interest is held, unless the rent is determined, 

in whole or in part, by the business volume or profitability of the tenant or exceeds fair market value; 

or 

4.An investment interest in an entity which owns or leases and operates a hospital licensed under 

chapter 395 or a nursing home facility licensed under chapter 400. 

(l)"Investor" means a person or entity owning a legal or beneficial ownership or investment 

interest, directly or indirectly, including, without limitation, through an immediate family member, 

trust, or another entity related to the investor within the meaning of 42 C.F.R. s. 413.17, in an entity. 

(m)"Outside referral for diagnostic imaging services" means a referral of a patient to a group 

practice or sole provider for diagnostic imaging services by a physician who is not a member of the 

group practice or of the sole provider's practice and who does not have an investment interest in the 

group practice or sole provider's practice, for which the group practice or sole provider billed for both 

the technical and the professional fee for the patient, and the patient did not become a patient of the 

group practice or sole provider's practice. 

(n)"Patient of a group practice" or "patient of a sole provider" means a patient who receives a 

physical examination, evaluation, diagnosis, and development of a treatment plan if medically 

necessary by a physician who is a member of the group practice or the sole provider's practice. 

(o)"Referral" means any referral of a patient by a health care provider for health care services, 

including, without limitation: 

1 .The forwarding of a patient by a health care provider to another health care provider or to an 

entity which provides or supplies designated health services or any other health care item or service; 

or 

2.The request or establishment of a plan of care by a health care provider, which includes the 

provision of designated health services or other health care item or service. 



3.The following orders, recommendations, or plans of care shall not constitute a referral by a 

health care provider: 

a.By a radiologist for diagnostic-imaging services. 

b.By a physician specializing in the provision of radiation therapy services for such services. 

c.By a medical oncologist for drugs and solutions to be prepared and administered intravenously to 

such oncologist's patient, as well as for the supplies and equipment used in connection therewith to 

treat such patient for cancer and the complications thereof. 

d.By a cardiologist for cardiac catheterization services. 

e.By a pathologist for diagnostic clinical laboratory tests and pathological examination services, if 

furnished by or under the supervision of such pathologist pursuant to a consultation requested by 

another physician. 

f.By a health care provider who is the sole provider or member of a group practice for designated 

health services or other health care items or services that are prescribed or provided solely for such 

referring health care provider's or group practice's own patients, and that are provided or performed 

by or under the direct supervision of such referring health care provider or group practice; provided, 

however, that effective July 1, 1999, a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 460, or chapter 461 may refer a patient to a sole provider or group practice for diagnostic 

imaging services, excluding radiation therapy services, for which the sole provider or group practice 

billed both the technical and the professional fee for or on behalf of the patient, if the referring 

physician has no investment interest in the practice. The diagnostic imaging service referred to a group 

practice or sole provider must be a diagnostic imaging service normally provided within the scope of 

practice to the patients of the group practice or sole provider. The group practice or sole provider may 

accept no more than 15 percent of their patients receiving diagnostic imaging services from outside 

referrals, excluding radiation therapy services. 

g.By a health care provider for services provided by an ambulatory surgical center licensed under 

chapter 395. 

h.By a urologist for lithotripsy services. 

i.By a dentist for dental services performed by an employee of or health care provider who is an 

independent contractor with the dentist or group practice of which the dentist is a member. 

j.By a physician for infusion therapy services to a patient of that physician or a member of that 

physician's group practice. 

k.By a nephrologist for renal dialysis services and supplies, except laboratory services. 

l.By a health care provider whose principal professional practice consists of treating patients in 

their private residences for services to be rendered in such private residences, except for services 

rendered by a home health agency licensed under chapter 400. For purposes of this sub-subparagraph, 

the term "private residences" includes patients' private homes, independent living centers, and 

assisted living facilities, but does not include skilled nursing facilities. 



m.By a health care provider for sleep-related testing. 

(p)"Present in the office suite" means that the physician is actually physically present; provided, 

however, that the health care provider is considered physically present during brief unexpected 

absences as well as during routine absences of a short duration if the absences occur during time 

periods in which the health care provider is otherwise scheduled and ordinarily expected to be present 

and the absences do not conflict with any other requirement in the Medicare program for a particular 

level of health care provider supervision. 

(q)"Rural area" means a county with a population density of no greater than 100 persons per 

square mile, as defined by the United States Census. 

(r)"Sole provider" means one health care provider licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 460, or chapter 461, who maintains a separate medical office and a medical practice separate 

from any other health care provider and who bills for his or her services separately from the services 

provided by any other health care provider. A sole provider shall not share overhead expenses or 

professional income with any other person or group practice. 

(4)REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTING OUTSIDE REFERRALS FOR DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING.— 

(a)A group practice or sole provider accepting outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services is 

required to comply with the following conditions: 

1 .Diagnostic imaging services must be provided exclusively by a group practice physician or by a 

full-time or part-time employee of the group practice or of the sole provider's practice. 

2.All equity in the group practice or sole provider's practice accepting outside referrals for 

diagnostic imaging must be held by the physicians comprising the group practice or the sole provider's 

practice, each of whom must provide at least 75 percent of his or her professional services to the 

group. Alternatively, the group must be incorporated under chapter 617 and must be exempt under the 

provisions of s. 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and be part of a foundation in existence prior to 

January 1, 1999, that is created for the purpose of patient care, medical education, and research. 

3.A group practice or sole provider may not enter into, extend or renew any contract with a 

practice management company that provides any financial incentives, directly or indirectly, based on 

an increase in outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services from any group or sole provider 

managed by the same practice management company. 

4.The group practice or sole provider accepting outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services 

must bill for both the professional and technical component of the service on behalf of the patient, 

and no portion of the payment, or any type of consideration, either directly or indirectly, may be 

shared with the referring physician. 

5.Group practices or sole providers that have a Medicaid provider agreement with the Agency for 

Health Care Administration must furnish diagnostic imaging services to their Medicaid patients and may 

not refer a Medicaid recipient to a hospital for outpatient diagnostic imaging services unless the 

physician furnishes the hospital with documentation demonstrating the medical necessity for such a 



referral. If necessary, the Agency for Health Care Administration may apply for a federal waiver to 

implement this subparagraph. 

6.All group practices and sole providers accepting outside referrals for diagnostic imaging shall 

report annually to the Agency for Health Care Administration providing the number of outside referrals 

accepted for diagnostic imaging services and the total number of all patients receiving diagnostic 

imaging services. 

(b)If a group practice or sole provider accepts an outside referral for diagnostic imaging services in 

violation of this subsection or if a group practice or sole provider accepts outside referrals for 

diagnostic imaging services in excess of the percentage limitation established in subparagraph (a)2., 

the group practice or the sole provider shall be subject to the penalties in subsection (5). 

(c)Each managing physician member of a group practice and each sole provider who accepts 

outside referrals for diagnostic imaging services shall submit an annual attestation signed under oath to 

the Agency for Health Care Administration which shall include the annual report required under 

subparagraph (a)6. and which shall further confirm that each group practice or sole provider is in 

compliance with the percentage limitations for accepting outside referrals and the requirements for 

accepting outside referrals listed in paragraph (a). The agency may verify the report submitted by 

group practices and sole providers. 

(5)PROHIBITED REFERRALS AND CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT.—Except as provided in this section: 

(a)A health care provider may not refer a patient for the provision of designated health services to 

an entity in which the health care provider is an investor or has an investment interest. 

(b)A health care provider may not refer a patient for the provision of any other health care item or 

service to an entity in which the health care provider is an investor unless: 

1 .The provider's investment interest is in registered securities purchased on a national exchange or 

over-the-counter market and issued by a publicly held corporation: 

a.Whose shares are traded on a national exchange or on the over-the-counter market; and 

b.Whose total assets at the end of the corporation's most recent fiscal quarter exceeded $50 

million; or 

2.With respect to an entity other than a publicly held corporation described in subparagraph 1., 

and a referring provider's investment interest in such entity, each of the following requirements are 

met: 

a.No more than 50 percent of the value of the investment interests are held by investors who are 

in a position to make referrals to the entity. 

b.The terms under which an investment interest is offered to an investor who is in a position to 

make referrals to the entity are no different from the terms offered to investors who are not in a 

position to make such referrals. 

c.The terms under which an investment interest is offered to an investor who is in a position to 

make referrals to the entity are not related to the previous or expected volume of referrals from that 



investor to the entity. 

d.There is no requirement that an investor make referrals or be in a position to make referrals to 

the entity as a condition for becoming or remaining an investor. 

3.With respect to either such entity or publicly held corporation: 

a.The entity or corporation does not loan funds to or guarantee a loan for an investor who is in a 

position to make referrals to the entity or corporation if the investor uses any part of such loan to 

obtain the investment interest. 

b.The amount distributed to an investor representing a return on the investment interest is 

directly proportional to the amount of the capital investment, including the fair market value of any 

preoperational services rendered, invested in the entity or corporation by that investor. 

4.Each board and, in the case of hospitals, the Agency for Health Care Administration, shall 

encourage the use by licensees of the declaratory statement procedure to determine the applicability 

of this section or any rule adopted pursuant to this section as it applies solely to the licensee. Boards 

shall submit to the Agency for Health Care Administration the name of any entity in which a provider 

investment interest has been approved pursuant to this section, and the Agency for Health Care 

Administration shall adopt rules providing for periodic quality assurance and utilization review of such 

entities. 

(c)No claim for payment may be presented by an entity to any individual, third-party payor, or 

other entity for a service furnished pursuant to a referral prohibited under this section. 

(d)If an entity collects any amount that was billed in violation of this section, the entity shall 

refund such amount on a timely basis to the payor or individual, whichever is applicable. 

(e)Any person that presents or causes to be presented a bill or a claim for service that such person 

knows or should know is for a service for which payment may not be made under paragraph (c), or for 

which a refund has not been made under paragraph (d), shall be subject to a civil penalty of not more 

than $15,000 for each such service to be imposed and collected by the appropriate board. 

(f)Any health care provider or other entity that enters into an arrangement or scheme, such as a 

cross-referral arrangement, which the physician or entity knows or should know has a principal purpose 

of assuring referrals by the physician to a particular entity which, if the physician directly made 

referrals to such entity, would be in violation of this section, shall be subject to a civil penalty of not 

more than $100,000 for each such circumvention arrangement or scheme to be imposed and collected 

by the appropriate board. 

(g)A violation of this section by a health care provider shall constitute grounds for disciplinary 

action to be taken by the applicable board pursuant to s. 458.331 (2), s. 459.01 5(2), s. 460.41 3(2), s. 

461 .013(2), s. 463.016(2), or s. 466.028(2). Any hospital licensed under chapter 395 found in violation 

of this section shall be subject to the rules adopted by the Agency for Health Care Administration 

pursuant to s. 395.01 85(2). 

(h)Any hospital licensed under chapter 395 that discriminates against or otherwise penalizes a 



health care provider for compliance with this act. 

(i)The provision of paragraph (a) shall not apply to referrals to the offices of radiation therapy 

centers managed by an entity or subsidiary or general partner thereof, which performed radiation 

therapy services at those same offices prior to April 1, 1991, and shall not apply also to referrals for 

radiation therapy to be performed at no more than one additional office of any entity qualifying for the 

foregoing exception which, prior to February 1, 1992, had a binding purchase contract on and a 

nonrefundable deposit paid for a linear accelerator to be used at the additional office. The physical 

site of the radiation treatment centers affected by this provision may be relocated as a result of the 

following factors: acts of God; fire; strike; accident; war; eminent domain actions by any governmental 

body; or refusal by the lessor to renew a lease. A relocation for the foregoing reasons is limited to 

relocation of an existing facility to a replacement location within the county of the existing facility 

upon written notification to the Office of Licensure and Certification. 

(j)A health care provider who meets the requirements of paragraphs (b) and (i) must disclose his or 

her investment interest to his or her patients as provided in s. 456.052. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 92-178; s. 89, ch. 94-218; s. 60, ch. 95-144; s. 35, ch. 95-146; S. 8, ch. 96-296; s. 1083, ch. 97-103; 

s. 78, ch. 97-261; s. 70, ch. 97-264; s. 263, ch. 98-166; s. 62, ch. 98-171; s. 1, ch. 99-356; s. 10, ch. 2000-159; s. 77, ch. 

2000-160; s. 14, ch. 2002-389; s. 23, ch. 2009-223. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.236; s. 455.654. 

456.O54Kickbacks prohibited.— 

(1 )As used in this section, the term "kickback" means a remuneration or payment, by or on behalf 

of a provider of health care services or items, to any person as an incentive or inducement to refer 

patients for past or future services or items, when the payment is not tax deductible as an ordinary and 

necessary expense. 

(2)It is unlawful for any health care provider or any provider of health care services to offer, pay, 

solicit, or receive a kickback, directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind, for referring 

or soliciting patients. 

(3)Violations of this section shall be considered patient brokering and shall be punishable as 

provided in s. 817.505. 

History.—s. 8, ch. 92-178; s. 2, ch. 96-152; s. 79, ch. 97-261; s. 8, ch. 99-204; s. 78, ch. 2000-160; s. 6, ch. 2006-305. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.237; s. 455.657. 

456.O55Chiropractic and podiatric health care; denial of payment; limitation.—A chiropractic 

physician licensed under chapter 460 or a podiatric physician licensed under chapter 461 shall not be 

denied payment for treatment rendered solely on the basis that the chiropractic physician or podiatric 

physician is not a member of a particular preferred provider organization or exclusive provider 

organization which is composed only of physicians licensed under the same chapter. 

History.—s. 43, ch. 85-167; s. 87, ch. 97-261; ss. 191, 264, ch. 98-166; s. 78, ch. 2000-160. 



Note.—Former s. 455.244; s. 455.684. 

456.O56Treatment of Medicare beneficiaries; refusal, emergencies, consulting physicians.— 

(1)Effective as of January 1, 1993, as used in this section, the term: 

(a)"Physician" means a physician licensed under chapter 458, an osteopathic physician licensed 

under chapter 459, a chiropractic physician licensed under chapter 460, a podiatric physician licensed 

under chapter 461, or an optometrist licensed under chapter 463. 

(b)"Beneficiary" means a beneficiary of health insurance under Title XVIII of the federal Social 

Security Act. 

(c)"Consulting physician" means any physician to whom a primary physician refers a Medicare 

beneficiary for treatment. 

(2)A physician may refuse to treat a beneficiary. However, nothing contained in this section shall 

be construed to limit a physician's obligation under state or federal law to treat a patient for an 

emergency medical condition, regardless of the patient's ability to pay. 

(3)If treatment is provided to a beneficiary for an emergency medical condition as defined in 's. 

395.0142(2)(c), the physician must accept Medicare assignment provided that the requirement to 

accept Medicare assignment for an emergency medical condition shall not apply to treatment rendered 

after the patient is stabilized, or the treatment is unrelated to the original emergency medical 

condition. For the purpose of this subsection "stabilized" is defined to mean with respect to an 

emergency medical condition, that no material deterioration of the condition is likely within 

reasonable medical probability. 

(4)If treatment provided to a beneficiary is not for such emergency medical condition, and the 

primary physician accepts assignment, all consulting physicians must accept assignment unless the 

patient agrees in writing, before receiving the treatment, that the physician need not accept 

assignment. 

(5)Any attempt by a primary physician or a consulting physician to collect from a Medicare 

beneficiary any amount of charges for medical services in excess of those authorized under this 

section, other than the unmet deductible and the 20 percent of charges that Medicare does not pay, 

shall be deemed null, void, and of no merit. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 92-118; s. 160, ch. 92-149; s. 89, ch. 97-261; ss. 192, 265, ch. 98-166; s. 78, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—"Emergency medical condition" is no longer defined in s. 395.0142, which was amended and 

transferred to s. 395.1041 by s. 24, ch. 92-289. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2455; s. 455.691. 

456.O57Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 

(1 )As used in this section, the term "records owner" means any health care practitioner who 

generates a medical record after making a physical or mental examination of, or administering 



treatment or dispensing legend drugs to, any person; any health care practitioner to whom records are 

transferred by a previous records owner; or any health care practitioner's employer, including, but not 

limited to, group practices and staff-model health maintenance organizations, provided the 

employment contract or agreement between the employer and the health care practitioner designates 

the employer as the records owner. 

(2)As used in this section, the terms "records owner," "health care practitioner," and "health care 

practitioner's employer" do not include any of the following persons or entities; furthermore, the 

following persons or entities are not authorized to acquire or own medical records, but are authorized 

under the confidentiality and disclosure requirements of this section to maintain those documents 

required by the part or chapter under which they are licensed or regulated: 

(a)Certified nursing assistants regulated under part II of chapter 464. 

(b)Pharmacists and pharmacies licensed under chapter 465. 

(c)Dental hygienists licensed under s. 466.023. 

(d)Nursing home administrators licensed under part II of chapter 468. 

(e)Respiratory therapists regulated under part V of chapter 468. 

(f)Athletic trainers licensed under part XIII of chapter 468. 

(g)Electrologists licensed under chapter 478. 

(h)Clinical laboratory personnel licensed under part III of chapter 483. 

(i)Medical physicists licensed under part IV of chapter 483. 

(j)Opticians and optical establishments licensed or permitted under part I of chapter 484. 

(k)Persons or entities practicing under s. 627.736(7). 

(3)As used in this section, the term "records custodian" means any person or entity that: 

(a)Maintains documents that are authorized in subsection (2); or 

(b)Obtains medical records from a records owner. 

(4)Any health care practitioner's employer who is a records owner and any records custodian shall 

maintain records or documents as provided under the confidentiality and disclosure requirements of 

this section. 

(5)This section does not apply to facilities licensed under chapter 395. 

(6)Any health care practitioner licensed by the department or a board within the department who 

makes a physical or mental examination of, or administers treatment or dispenses legend drugs to, any 

person shall, upon request of such person or the person's legal representative, furnish, in a timely 

manner, without delays for legal review, copies of all reports and records relating to such examination 

or treatment, including X rays and insurance information. However, when a patient's psychiatric, 

chapter 490 psychological, or chapter 491 psychotherapeutic records are requested by the patient or 

the patient's legal representative, the health care practitioner may provide a report of examination 

and treatment in lieu of copies of records. Upon a patient's written request, complete copies of the 

patient's psychiatric records shall be provided directly to a subsequent treating psychiatrist. The 





or any professional practice act or that a health care practitioner has practiced his or her profession 

below that level of care, skill, and treatment required as defined by this chapter or any professional 

practice act and also find that appropriate, reasonable attempts were made to obtain a patient 

release. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the department need not attempt to obtain a patient release 

when investigating an offense involving the inappropriate prescribing, overprescribing, or diversion of 

controlled substances and the offense involves a pain-management clinic. The department may obtain 

patient records without patient authorization or subpoena from any pain-management clinic required 

to be licensed if the department has probable cause to believe that a violation of any provision of s. 

458.3265 or s. 459.0137 is occurring or has occurred and reasonably believes that obtaining such 

authorization is not feasible due to the volume of the dispensing and prescribing activity involving 

controlled substances and that obtaining patient authorization or the issuance of a subpoena would 

jeopardize the investigation. 

2.The department may obtain patient records and insurance information pursuant to a subpoena 

without written authorization from the patient if the department and the probable cause panel of the 

appropriate board, if any, find reasonable cause to believe that a health care practitioner has provided 

inadequate medical care based on termination of insurance and also find that appropriate, reasonable 

attempts were made to obtain a patient release. 

3.The department may obtain patient records, billing records, insurance information, provider 

contracts, and all attachments thereto pursuant to a subpoena without written authorization from the 

patient if the department and probable cause panel of the appropriate board, if any, find reasonable 

cause to believe that a health care practitioner has submitted a claim, statement, or bill using a billing 

code that would result in payment greater in amount than would be paid using a billing code that 

accurately describes the services performed, requested payment for services that were not performed 

by that health care practitioner, used information derived from a written report of an automobile 

accident generated pursuant to chapter 316 to solicit or obtain patients personally or through an agent 

regardless of whether the information is derived directly from the report or a summary of that report 

or from another person, solicited patients fraudulently, received a kickback as defined in s. 456.054, 

violated the patient brokering provisions of s. 817.505, or presented or caused to be presented a false 

or fraudulent insurance claim within the meaning of s. 817.234(1)(a), and also find that, within the 

meaning of s. 817.234(1 )(a), patient authorization cannot be obtained because the patient cannot be 

located or is deceased, incapacitated, or suspected of being a participant in the fraud or scheme, and 

if the subpoena is issued for specific and relevant records. 

4.Notwithstanding subparagraphs 1 .-3., when the department investigates a professional liability 

claim or undertakes action pursuant to s. 456.049 or s. 627.912, the department may obtain patient 

records pursuant to a subpoena without written authorization from the patient if the patient refuses to 

cooperate or if the department attempts to obtain a patient release and the failure to obtain the 

patient records would be detrimental to the investigation. 



(b)Patient records, billing records, insurance information, provider contracts, and all attachments 

thereto obtained by the department pursuant to this subsection shall be used solely for the purpose of 

the department and the appropriate regulatory board in disciplinary proceedings. This section does not 

limit the assertion of the psychotherapist-patient privilege under s. 90.503 in regard to records of 

treatment for mental or nervous disorders by a medical practitioner licensed pursuant to chapter 458 

or chapter 459 who has primarily diagnosed and treated mental and nervous disorders for a period of 

not less than 3 years, inclusive of psychiatric residency. However, the health care practitioner shall 

release records of treatment for medical conditions even if the health care practitioner has also 

treated the patient for mental or nervous disorders. If the department has found reasonable cause 

under this section and the psychotherapist-patient privilege is asserted, the department may petition 

the circuit court for an in camera review of the records by expert medical practitioners appointed by 

the court to determine if the records or any part thereof are protected under the psychotherapist- 

patient privilege. 

(10)(a)All patient records obtained by the department and any other documents maintained by the 

department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and 

shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate regulatory board in its 

investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The records shall not be available to 

the public as part of the record of investigation for and prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made 

available to the public by the department or the appropriate board. 

(b)Notwithstanding paragraph (a), all patient records obtained by the department and any other 

documents maintained by the department which relate to a current or former Medicaid recipient shall 

be provided to the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit in the Department of Legal Affairs, upon request. 

(11 )All records owners shall develop and implement policies, standards, and procedures to protect 

the confidentiality and security of the medical record. Employees of records owners shall be trained in 

these policies, standards, and procedures. 

(12)Records owners are responsible for maintaining a record of all disclosures of information 

contained in the medical record to a third party, including the purpose of the disclosure request. The 

record of disclosure may be maintained in the medical record. The third party to whom information is 

disclosed is prohibited from further disclosing any information in the medical record without the 

expressed written consent of the patient or the patient's legal representative. 

(13)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 456.058, records owners shall place an advertisement in 

the local newspaper or notify patients, in writing, when they are terminating practice, retiring, or 

relocating, and no longer available to patients, and offer patients the opportunity to obtain a copy of 

their medical record. 

(14)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 456.058, records owners shall notify the appropriate board 

office when they are terminating practice, retiring, or relocating, and no longer available to patients, 

specifying who the new records owner is and where medical records can be found. 



(15)Whenever a records owner has turned records over to a new records owner, the new records 

owner shalt be responsible for providing a copy of the complete medical record, upon written request, 

of the patient or the patient's legal representative. 

(16)Licensees in violation of the provisions of this section shall be disciplined by the appropriate 

licensing authority. 

(17)The Attorney General is authorized to enforce the provisions of this section for records owners 

not otherwise licensed by the state, through injunctive relief and fines not to exceed $5,000 per 

violation. 

(18)A health care practitioner or records owner furnishing copies of reports or records or making 

the reports or records available for digital scanning pursuant to this section shall charge no more than 

the actual cost of copying, including reasonable staff time, or the amount specified in administrative 

rule by the appropriate board, or the department when there is no board. 

(19)Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit health care practitioner consultations, as 

necessary. 

(20)A records owner shall release to a health care practitioner who, as an employee of the records 

owner, previously provided treatment to a patient, those records that the health care practitioner 

actually created or generated when the health care practitioner treated the patient. Records released 

pursuant to this subsection shall be released only upon written request of the health care practitioner 

and shall be limited to the notes, plans of care, and orders and summaries that were actually 

generated by the health care practitioner requesting the record. 

(21 )The board, or department when there is no board, may temporarily or permanently appoint a 

person or entity as a custodian of medical records in the event of the death of a practitioner, the 

mental or physical incapacitation of the practitioner, or the abandonment of medical records by a 

practitioner. The custodian appointed shall comply with all provisions of this section, including the 

release of patient records. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 79-302; s. 1, ch. 82-22; s. 1, ch. 83-108; s. 81, ch. 83-218; ss. 14, 119, ch. 83-329; s. 2, ch. 84-15; s. 

41, ch. 85-175; s. 4, ch. 87-333; s. 9, ch. 88-1; s. 2, ch. 88-208; s. 14, ch. 88-219; s. 6, ch. 88-277; s. 10, ch. 88-392; s. 2, 

ch. 89-85; s. 14, ch. 89-124; s. 28, ch. 89-289; s. 1, ch. 90-263; s. 11, ch. 91-137; s. 6, ch. 91-140; s. 12, ch. 91-176; s. 4, 

ch. 91 -269; s. 62, ch. 92-33; s. 32, ch. 92-149; s. 23, ch. 93-129; s. 315, ch. 94-119; ss. 90, 91, ch. 94-218; s. 308, ch. 96- 

406; s. 1084, ch. 97-103; s. 82, ch. 97-261; s. 6, ch. 98-166; s. 12, ch. 99-349; s. 86, ch. 99-397; s. 79, ch. 2000-160; s. 9, 

ch. 2000-163; s. 114, ch. 2000-318; s. 9, ch. 2001-222; ss. 69, 140, ch. 2001-277; s. 18, ch. 2003-416; s. 4, ch. 2005-256; 

s. 1, ch. 2006-271; s. 2, ch. 2010-211. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.241; s. 455.667. 

456.O575Duty to notify patients.—Every licensed health care practitioner shall inform each 

patient, or an individual identified pursuant to s. 765.401 (1), in person about adverse incidents that 

result in serious harm to the patient. Notification of outcomes of care that result in harm to the 



patient under this section shall not constitute an acknowledgment of admission of liability, nor can 

such notifications be introduced as evidence. 

History.—s. 8, ch. 2003-416. 

456.O58Disposition of records of deceased practitioners or practitioners relocating or 

terminating practice.—Each board created under the provisions of chapter 457, chapter 458, chapter 

459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 463, part I of chapter 464, chapter 465, chapter 466, part I of 

chapter 484, chapter 486, chapter 490, or chapter 491, and the department under the provisions of 

chapter 462, shall provide by rule for the disposition, under that chapter, of the medical records or 

records of a psychological nature of practitioners which are in existence at the time the practitioner 

dies, terminates practice, or relocates and is no longer available to patients and which records pertain 

to the practitioner's patients. The rules shall provide that the records be retained for at least 2 years 

after the practitioner's death, termination of practice, or relocation. In the case of the death of the 

practitioner, the rules shall provide for the disposition of such records by the estate of the 

practitioner. 

History.—s. 85, ch. 97-261; s. 80, ch. 2000-160; s. 115, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.677. 

456.O59Communications confidential; exceptions.—Communications between a patient and a 

psychiatrist, as defined in s. 394.455, shall be held confidential and shall not be disclosed except upon 

the request of the patient or the patient's legal representative. Provision of psychiatric records and 

reports shall be governed by s. 456.057. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section or s. 

90.503, where: 

(1 )A patient is engaged in a treatment relationship with a psychiatrist; 

(2)Such patient has made an actual threat to physically harm an identifiable victim or victims; and 

(3)The treating psychiatrist makes a clinical judgment that the patient has the apparent capability 

to commit such an act and that it is more likely than not that in the near future the patient will carry 

out that threat, 

the psychiatrist may disclose patient communications to the extent necessary to warn any potential 

victim or to communicate the threat to a law enforcement agency. No civil or criminal action shall be 

instituted, and there shall be no liability on account of disclosure of otherwise confidential 

communications by a psychiatrist in disclosing a threat pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 10, ch. 88-1; s. 33, ch. 92-149; s. 43, ch. 96-169; s. 83, ch. 97-261; s. 81, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2415; s. 455.671. 

456.O6lPractitioner disclosure of confidential information; immunity from civil or criminal 

liability. 

(1 )A practitioner regulated through the Division of Medical Quality Assurance of the department 



shall not be civilly or criminally liable for the disclosure of otherwise confidential information to a 

sexual partner or a needle-sharing partner under the following circumstances: 

(a)If a patient of the practitioner who has tested positive for human immunodeficiency virus 

discloses to the practitioner the identity of a sexual partner or a needle-sharing partner; 

(b)The practitioner recommends the patient notify the sexual partner or the needle-sharing 

partner of the positive test and refrain from engaging in sexual or drug activity in a manner likely to 

transmit the virus and the patient refuses, and the practitioner informs the patient of his or her intent 

to inform the sexual partner or needle-sharing partner; and 

(c)If pursuant to a perceived civil duty or the ethical guidelines of the profession, the practitioner 

reasonably and in good faith advises the sexual partner or the needle-sharing partner of the patient of 

the positive test and facts concerning the transmission of the virus. 

However, any notification of a sexual partner or a needle-sharing partner pursuant to this section 

shall be done in accordance with protocols developed pursuant to rule of the Department of Health. 

(2)Notwithstanding the foregoing, a practitioner regulated through the Division of Medical Quality 

Assurance of the department shall not be civilly or criminally liable for failure to disclose information 

relating to a positive test result for human immunodeficiency virus of a patient to a sexual partner or a 

needle-sharing partner. 

History.—s. 43, ch. 88-380; s. 12, ch. 89-350; s. 191, ch. 97-103; s. 84, ch. 97-261; s. 220, ch. 99-8; s. 82, ch. 2000- 

160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2416; s. 455.674. 

456.O62Advertisement by a health care practitioner of free or discounted services; required 

statement.—In any advertisement for a free, discounted fee, or reduced fee service, examination, or 

treatment by a health care practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 

461, chapter 462, chapter 463, chapter 464, chapter 465, chapter 466, chapter 467, chapter 478, 

chapter 483, part I of chapter 484, chapter 486, chapter 490, or chapter 491, the following statement 

shall appear in capital letters clearly distinguishable from the rest of the text: THE PATIENT AND ANY 

OTHER PERSON RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT HAS A RIGHT TO REFUSE TO PAY, CANCEL PAYMENT, OR BE 

REIMBURSED FOR PAYMENT FOR ANY OTHER SERVICE, EXAMINATION, OR TREATMENT THAT IS 

PERFORMED AS A RESULT OF AND WITHIN 72 HOURS OF RESPONDING TO THE ADVERTISEMENT FOR THE 

FREE, DISCOUNTED FEE, OR REDUCED FEE SERVICE, EXAMINATION, OR TREATMENT. However, the 

required statement shall not be necessary as an accompaniment to an advertisement of a licensed 

health care practitioner defined by this section if the advertisement appears in a classified directory 

the primary purpose of which is to provide products and services at free, reduced, or discounted prices 

to consumers and in which the statement prominently appears in at least one place. 

History.—s. 81, ch. 97-261; s. 85, ch. 99-397; s. 82, ch. 2000-160; s. 1, ch. 2006-215. 

Note.—Former s. 455.664. 



or 

the a of the 

the to or 

the an of 

or or to or to to 

sexual the practice of health care 

the of a is 

board or if no 

to a candidate and or 

the or applicant has: 

(a)Had any license, certificate, or registration to practice any profession or occupation revoked or 

surrendered based on a violation of sexual misconduct in the practice of that profession under the laws 

of any other state or any territory or possession of the United States and has not had that license, 

certificate, or registration reinstated by the licensing authority of the jurisdiction that revoked the 

license, certificate, or registration; or 

(b)Committed any act in any other state or any territory or possession of the United States which if 

committed in this state would constitute sexual misconduct. 

For purposes of this subsection, a licensing authority's acceptance of a candidate's relinquishment of 

a license which is offered in response to or in anticipation of the filing of administrative charges 

against the candidate's license constitutes the surrender of the license. 

(3)Licensed health care practitioners shall report allegations of sexual misconduct to the 

department, regardless of the practice setting in which the alleged sexual misconduct occurred. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 95-183; s. 52, ch. 97-261; s. 78, ch. 99-397; s. 82, ch. 2000-160; s. 25, ch. 2000-318; s. 70, ch. 2001- 

277. 

Note.—Former s. 455.2142; s. 455.567. 

456.O635Health care fraud; disqualification for license, certificate, or registration.— 

(1 )Health care fraud in the practice of a health care profession is prohibited. 

(2)Each board within the jurisdiction of the department, or the department if there is no board, 

shall refuse to admit a candidate to any examination and refuse to issue a license, certificate, or 

registration to any applicant if the candidate or applicant or any principal, officer, agent, managing 

employee, or affiliated person of the applicant: 

(a)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under chapter 409, chapter 817, or chapter 893, or a similar felony offense 

committed in another state or jurisdiction, unless the candidate or applicant has successfully 

completed a drug court program for that felony and provides proof that the plea has been withdrawn 

or the charges have been dismissed. Any such conviction or plea shall exclude the applicant or 





application. 

(b)Has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless of 

adjudication, a felony under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970, or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396 since July 1, 2009, unless 

the sentence and any subsequent period of probation for such conviction or plea ended more than 15 

years before the date of the application. 

(c)Has been terminated for cause from the Florida Medicaid program pursuant to s. 409.913, unless 

the applicant has been in good standing with the Florida Medicaid program for the most recent 5 years. 

(d)Has been terminated for cause, pursuant to the appeals procedures established by the state, 

from any other state Medicaid program, unless the applicant has been in good standing with a state 

Medicaid program for the most recent 5 years and the termination occurred at least 20 years before 

the date of the application. 

(e)Is currently listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of 

Inspector General's List of Excluded Individuals and Entities. 

(4)Licensed health care practitioners shall report allegations of health care fraud to the 

department, regardless of the practice setting in which the alleged health care fraud occurred. 

(5)The acceptance by a licensing authority of a licensee's relinquishment of a license which is 

offered in response to or anticipation of the filing of administrative charges alleging health care fraud 

or similar charges constitutes the permanent revocation of the license. 

History.—s. 24, ch. 2009-223; s. 1, ch. 2012-64. 

456.O65Unlicensed practice of a health care profession; intent; cease and desist notice; 

penalties; enforcement; citations; fees; allocation and disposition of moneys collected.— 

(1 )It is the intent of the Legislature that vigorous enforcement of licensure regulation for all health 

care professions is a state priority in order to protect Florida residents and visitors from the potentially 

serious and dangerous consequences of receiving medical and health care services from unlicensed 

persons whose professional education and training and other relevant qualifications have not been 

approved through the issuance of a license by the appropriate regulatory board or the department 

when there is no board. The unlicensed practice of a health care profession or the performance or 

delivery of medical or health care services to patients in this state without a valid, active license to 

practice that profession, regardless of the means of the performance or delivery of such services, is 

strictly prohibited. 

(2)The penalties for unlicensed practice of a health care profession shall include the following: 

(a)When the department has probable cause to believe that any person not licensed by the 

department, or the appropriate regulatory board within the department, has violated any provision of 

this chapter or any statute that relates to the practice of a profession regulated by the department, or 

any rule adopted pursuant thereto, the department may issue and deliver to such person a notice to 

cease and desist from such violation. In addition, the department may issue and deliver a notice to 



cease and desist to any person who aids and abets the unlicensed practice of a profession by employing 

such unlicensed person. The issuance of a notice to cease and desist shall not constitute agency action 

for which a hearing under ss. 120.569 and 120.57 may be sought. For the purpose of enforcing a cease 

and desist order, the department may file a proceeding in the name of the state seeking issuance of an 

injunction or a writ of mandamus against any person who violates any provisions of such order. 

(b)In addition to the remedies under paragraph (a), the department may impose by citation an 

administrative penalty not to exceed $5,000 per incident. The citation shall be issued to the subject 

and shall contain the subject's name and any other information the department determines to be 

necessary to identify the subject, a brief factual statement, the sections of the law allegedly violated, 

and the penalty imposed. If the subject does not dispute the matter in the citation with the 

department within 30 days after the citation is served, the citation shall become a final order of the 

department. The department may adopt rules to implement this section. The penalty shall be a fine of 

not less than $500 nor more than $5,000 as established by rule of the department. Each day that the 

unlicensed practice continues after issuance of a notice to cease and desist constitutes a separate 

violation. The department shall be entitled to recover the costs of investigation and prosecution in 

addition to the fine levied pursuant to the citation. Service of a citation may be made by personal 

service or by mail to the subject at the subject's last known address or place of practice. If the 

department is required to seek enforcement of the cease and desist or agency order, it shall be 

entitled to collect its attorney's fees and costs. 

(c)In addition to or in lieu of any other administrative remedy, the department may seek the 

imposition of a civil penalty through the circuit court for any violation for which the department may 

issue a notice to cease and desist. The civil penalty shall be no less than $500 and no more than $5,000 

for each offense. The court may also award to the prevailing party court costs and reasonable attorney 

fees and, in the event the department prevails, may also award reasonable costs of investigation and 

prosecution. 

(d)In addition to the administrative and civil remedies under paragraphs (b) and (c) and in addition 

to the criminal violations and penalties listed in the individual health care practice acts: 

1 .It is a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, 

to practice, attempt to practice, or offer to practice a health care profession without an active, valid 

Florida license to practice that profession. Practicing without an active, valid license also includes 

practicing on a suspended, revoked, or void license, but does not include practicing, attempting to 

practice, or offering to practice with an inactive or delinquent license for a period of up to 12 months 

which is addressed in subparagraph 3. Applying for employment for a position that requires a license 

without notifying the employer that the person does not currently possess a valid, active license to 

practice that profession shall be deemed to be an attempt or offer to practice that health care 

profession without a license. Holding oneself out, regardless of the means of communication, as able to 

practice a health care profession or as able to provide services that require a health care license shall 



be deemed to be an attempt or offer to practice such profession without a license. The minimum 

penalty for violating this subparagraph shall be a fine of $1,000 and a minimum mandatory period of 

incarceration of 1 year. 

2.It is a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 

775.084, to practice a health care profession without an active, valid Florida license to practice that 

profession when such practice results in serious bodily injury. For purposes of this section, "serious 

bodily injury" means death; brain or spinal damage; disfigurement; fracture or dislocation of bones or 

joints; limitation of neurological, physical, or sensory function; or any condition that required 

subsequent surgical repair. The minimum penalty for violating this subparagraph shall be a fine of 

$1,000 and a minimum mandatory period of incarceration of 1 year. 

3.It is a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, to 

practice, attempt to practice, or offer to practice a health care profession with an inactive or 

delinquent license for any period of time up to 12 months. However, practicing, attempting to 

practice, or offering to practice a health care profession when that person's license has been inactive 

or delinquent for a period of time of 12 months or more shall be a felony of the third degree, 

punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. The minimum penalty for violating this 

subparagraph shall be a term of imprisonment of 30 days and a fine of $500. 

(3)Because all enforcement costs should be covered by professions regulated by the department, 

the department shall impose, upon initial licensure and each licensure renewal, a special fee of $5 per 

licensee to fund efforts to combat unlicensed activity. Such fee shall be in addition to all other fees 

collected from each licensee. The department shall make direct charges to the Medical Quality 

Assurance Trust Fund by profession. The department shall seek board advice regarding enforcement 

methods and strategies. The department shall directly credit the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund, 

by profession, with the revenues received from the department's efforts to enforce licensure 

provisions. The department shall include all financial and statistical data resulting from unlicensed 

activity enforcement as a separate category in the quarterly management report provided for in s. 

456.025. For an unlicensed activity account, a balance which remains at the end of a renewal cycle 

may, with concurrence of the applicable board and the department, be transferred to the operating 

fund account of that profession. The department shall also use these funds to inform and educate 

consumers generally on the importance of using licensed health care practitioners. 

(4)The provisions of this section apply only to health care professional practice acts administered 

by the department. 

(5)Nothing herein shall be construed to limit or restrict the sale, use, or recommendation of the 

use of a dietary supplement, as defined by the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. s. 321, so long 

as the person selling, using, or recommending the dietary supplement does so in compliance with 

federal and state law. 

History.—s. 73, ch. 97-261; s. 84, ch. 2000-160; s. 35, ch. 2000-318; s. 54, ch. 2001 -277. 



Note.—Former s. 455.637. 

456.O66Prosecution of criminal violations.—The department or the appropriate board shall report 

any criminal violation of any statute relating to the practice of a profession regulated by the 

department or appropriate board to the proper prosecuting authority for prompt prosecution. 

History.—s. 72, ch. 97-261; s. 85, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.634. 

456.O67Penalty for giving false information.—In addition to, or in lieu of, any other discipline 

imposed pursuant to s. 456.072, the act of knowingly giving false information in the course of applying 

for or obtaining a license from the department, or any board thereunder, with intent to mislead a 

public servant in the performance of his or her official duties, or the act of attempting to obtain or 

obtaining a license from the department, or any board thereunder, to practice a profession by 

knowingly misleading statements or knowing misrepresentations constitutes a felony of the third 

degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

History.—s. 71, ch. 97-261; s. 24, ch. 99-7; s. 86, ch. 2000-160; s. 27, ch. 2000-318. 

Note.—Former s. 455.631. 

456.O68Toll-free telephone number for reporting of complaints.—The Agency for Health Care 

Administration shall establish a toll-free telephone number for public reporting of complaints relating 

to medical treatment or services provided by health care professionals. 

History.—s. 148, ch. 97-237; s. 24, ch. 97-273; s. 87, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.699. 

456.O69Authority to inspect.—In addition to the authority specified in s. 465.01 7, duly authorized 

agents and employees of the department shall have the power to inspect in a lawful manner at all 

reasonable hours: 

(1)Any pharmacy; or 

(2)Any establishment at which the services of a licensee authorized to prescribe controlled 

substances specified in chapter 893 are offered, 

for the purpose of determining if any of the provisions of this chapter or any practice act of a 

profession or any rule adopted thereunder is being violated; or for the purpose of securing such other 

evidence as may be needed for prosecution. 

History.—s. 86, ch. 97-261; s. 88, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.681. 

456.071 Power to administer oaths, take depositions, and issue subpoenas.—For the purpose of 

any investigation or proceeding conducted by the department, the department shall have the power to 

administer oaths, take depositions, make inspections when authorized by statute, issue subpoenas 



which shalt be supported by affidavit, serve subpoenas and other process, and compel the attendance 

of witnesses and the production of books, papers, documents, and other evidence. The department 

shall exercise this power on its own initiative or whenever requested by a board or the probable cause 

panel of any board. Challenges to, and enforcement of, the subpoenas and orders shall be handled as 

provided in s. 120.569. 

History.—s. 65, ch. 97-261; s. 89, ch. 2000-160. 

Note.—Former s. 455.611. 

456.O72Grounds for discipline; penalties; enforcement.— 

(1 )The following acts shall constitute grounds for which the disciplinary actions specified in 

subsection (2) may be taken: 

(a)Making misleading, deceptive, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of the 

licensee's profession. 

(b)Intentionally violating any rule adopted by the board or the department, as appropriate. 

(c)Being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, regardless 

of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to the practice of, or the ability to practice, a 

licensee's profession. 

(d)Using a Class III or a Class IV laser device or product, as defined by federal regulations, without 

having complied with the rules adopted under s. 501.122(2) governing the registration of the devices. 

(e)Failing to comply with the educational course requirements for human immunodeficiency virus 

and acquired immune deficiency syndrome. 

(f)Having a license or the authority to practice any regulated profession revoked, suspended, or 

otherwise acted against, including the denial of licensure, by the licensing authority of any 

jurisdiction, including its agencies or subdivisions, for a violation that would constitute a violation 

under Florida law. The licensing authority's acceptance of a relinquishment of licensure, stipulation, 

consent order, or other settlement, offered in response to or in anticipation of the filing of charges 

against the license, shall be construed as action against the license. 

(g)Having been found liable in a civil proceeding for knowingly filing a false report or complaint 

with the department against another licensee. 

(h)Attempting to obtain, obtaining, or renewing a license to practice a profession by bribery, by 

fraudulent misrepresentation, or through an error of the department or the board. 

(i)Except as provided in s. 465.01 6, failing to report to the department any person who the 

licensee knows is in violation of this chapter, the chapter regulating the alleged violator, or the rules 

of the department or the board. 

(j)Aiding, assisting, procuring, employing, or advising any unlicensed person or entity to practice a 

profession contrary to this chapter, the chapter regulating the profession, or the rules of the 

department or the board. 



(k)Failing to perform any statutory or legal obligation placed upon a licensee. For purposes of this 

section, failing to repay a student loan issued or guaranteed by the state or the Federal Government in 

accordance with the terms of the loan or failing to comply with service scholarship obligations shall be 

considered a failure to perform a statutory or legal obligation, and the minimum disciplinary action 

imposed shall be a suspension of the license until new payment terms are agreed upon or the 

scholarship obligation is resumed, followed by probation for the duration of the student loan or 

remaining scholarship obligation period, and a fine equal to 10 percent of the defaulted loan amount. 

Fines collected shall be deposited into the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund. 

(l)Making or filing a report which the licensee knows to be false, intentionally or negligently failing 

to file a report or record required by state or federal law, or willfully impeding or obstructing another 

person to do so. Such reports or records shall include only those that are signed in the capacity of a 

licensee. 

(m)Making deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent representations in or related to the practice of a 

profession or employing a trick or scheme in or related to the practice of a profession. 

(n)Exercising influence on the patient or client for the purpose of financial gain of the licensee or a 

third party. 

(o)Practicing or offering to practice beyond the scope permitted by law or accepting and 

performing professional responsibilities the licensee knows, or has reason to know, the licensee is not 

competent to perform. 

(p)Delegating or contracting for the performance of professional responsibilities by a person when 

the licensee delegating or contracting for performance of the responsibilities knows, or has reason to 

know, the person is not qualified by training, experience, and authorization when required to perform 

them. 

(q)Violating a lawful order of the department or the board, or failing to comply with a lawfully 

issued subpoena of the department. 

(r)Improperly interfering with an investigation or inspection authorized by statute, or with any 

disciplinary proceeding. 

(s)Failing to comply with the educational course requirements for domestic violence. 

(t)Failing to identify through written notice, which may include the wearing of a name tag, or 

orally to a patient the type of license under which the practitioner is practicing. Any advertisement for 

health care services naming the practitioner must identify the type of license the practitioner holds. 

This paragraph does not apply to a practitioner while the practitioner is providing services in a facility 

licensed under chapter 394, chapter 395, chapter 400, or chapter 429. Each board, or the department 

where there is no board, is authorized by rule to determine how its practitioners may comply with this 

disclosure requirement. 

(u)Failing to comply with the requirements of ss. 381 .026 and 381 .0261 to provide patients with 

information about their patient rights and how to file a patient complaint. 



(v)Engaging or attempting to engage in sexual misconduct as defined and prohibited in s. 

456.063(1). 

(w)Failing to comply with the requirements for profiling and credentialing, including, but not 

limited to, failing to provide initial information, failing to timely provide updated information, or 

making misleading, untrue, deceptive, or fraudulent representations on a profile, credentialing, or 

initial or renewal licensure application. 

(x)Failing to report to the board, or the department if there is no board, in writing within 30 days 

after the licensee has been convicted or found guilty of, or entered a plea of nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction. Convictions, findings, adjudications, and pleas 

entered into prior to the enactment of this paragraph must be reported in writing to the board, or 

department if there is no board, on or before October 1, 1999. 

(y)Using information about people involved in motor vehicle accidents which has been derived from 

accident reports made by law enforcement officers or persons involved in accidents under s. 316.066, 

or using information published in a newspaper or other news publication or through a radio or 

television broadcast that has used information gained from such reports, for the purposes of 

commercial or any other solicitation whatsoever of the people involved in the accidents. 

(z)Being unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients by reason of illness or use 

of alcohol, drugs, narcotics, chemicals, or any other type of material or as a result of any mental or 

physical condition. In enforcing this paragraph, the department shall have, upon a finding of the State 

Surgeon General or the State Surgeon General's designee that probable cause exists to believe that the 

licensee is unable to practice because of the reasons stated in this paragraph, the authority to issue an 

order to compel a licensee to submit to a mental or physical examination by physicians designated by 

the department. If the licensee refuses to comply with the order, the department's order directing the 

examination may be enforced by filing a petition for enforcement in the circuit court where the 

licensee resides or does business. The department shall be entitled to the summary procedure provided 

in s. 51 .011. A licensee or certificateholder affected under this paragraph shall at reasonable intervals 

be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate that he or she can resume the competent practice of his or 

her profession with reasonable skill and safety to patients. 

(aa)Testing positive for any drug, as defined in s. 112.0455, on any confirmed preempboyment or 

employer-ordered drug screening when the practitioner does not have a lawful prescription and 

legitimate medical reason for using the drug. 

(bb)Performing or attempting to perform health care services on the wrong patient, a wrong-site 

procedure, a wrong procedure, or an unauthorized procedure or a procedure that is medically 

unnecessary or otherwise unrelated to the patient's diagnosis or medical condition. For the purposes of 

this paragraph, performing or attempting to perform health care services includes the preparation of 

the patient. 

(cc)Leaving a foreign body in a patient, such as a sponge, clamp, forceps, surgical needle, or other 



paraphernalia commonly used in surgical, examination, or other diagnostic procedures. For the 

purposes of this paragraph, it shall be legally presumed that retention of a foreign body is not in the 

best interest of the patient and is not within the standard of care of the profession, regardless of the 

intent of the professional. 

(dd)Violating any provision of this chapter, the applicable practice act, or any rules adopted 

pursuant thereto. 

(ee)With respect to making a personal injury protection claim as required by s. 627.736, 

intentionally submitting a claim, statement, or bill that has been "upcoded" as defined in s. 627.732. 

(ff)With respect to making a personal injury protection claim as required by s. 627.736, 

intentionally submitting a claim, statement, or bill for payment of services that were not rendered. 

(gg)Engaging in a pattern of practice when prescribing medicinal drugs or controlled substances 

which demonstrates a lack of reasonable skill or safety to patients, a violation of any provision of this 

chapter, a violation of the applicable practice act, or a violation of any rules adopted under this 

chapter or the applicable practice act of the prescribing practitioner. Notwithstanding s. 456.073(1 3), 

the department may initiate an investigation and establish such a pattern from billing records, data, or 

any other information obtained by the department. 

(hh)Being terminated from a treatment program for impaired practitioners, which is overseen by 

an impaired practitioner consultant as described in s. 456.076, for failure to comply, without good 

cause, with the terms of the monitoring or treatment contract entered into by the licensee, or for not 

successfully completing any drug treatment or alcohol treatment program. 

(ii)Being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, any misdemeanor or 

felony, regardless of adjudication, under 18 U.S.C. s. 669, ss. 285-287, s. 371, s. 1001, s. 1035, s. 1341, 

s. 1343, s. 1347, s. 1349, or s. 1518, or 42 U.S.C. ss. 1320a-7b, relating to the Medicaid program. 

(jj)Failing to remit the sum owed to the state for an overpayment from the Medicaid program 

pursuant to a final order, judgment, or stipulation or settlement. 

(kk)Being terminated from the state Medicaid program pursuant to s. 409.913, any other state 

Medicaid program, or the federal Medicare program, unless eligibility to participate in the program 

from which the practitioner was terminated has been restored. 

(ll)Being convicted of, or entering a plea of guilty or nob contendere to, any misdemeanor or 

felony, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction which relates to health care fraud. 

(mm)Failure to comply with controlled substance prescribing requirements of s. 456.44. 

(nn)Violating any of the provisions of s. 790.338. 

(2)When the board, or the department when there is no board, finds any person guilty of the 

grounds set forth in subsection (1) or of any grounds set forth in the applicable practice act, including 

conduct constituting a substantial violation of subsection (1) or a violation of the applicable practice 

act which occurred prior to obtaining a license, it may enter an order imposing one or more of the 

following penalties: 



(a)Refusal to certify, or to certify with restrictions, an application for a license. 

(b)Suspension or permanent revocation of a license. 

(c)Restriction of practice or license, including, but not limited to, restricting the licensee from 

practicing in certain settings, restricting the licensee to work only under designated conditions or in 

certain settings, restricting the licensee from performing or providing designated clinical and 

administrative services, restricting the licensee from practicing more than a designated number of 

hours, or any other restriction found to be necessary for the protection of the public health, safety, 

and welfare. 

(d)Imposition of an administrative fine not to exceed $10,000 for each count or separate offense. If 

the violation is for fraud or making a false or fraudulent representation, the board, or the department 

if there is no board, must impose a fine of $10,000 per count or offense. 

(e)Issuance of a reprimand or letter of concern. 

(f)Placement of the licensee on probation for a period of time and subject to such conditions as 

the board, or the department when there is no board, may specify. Those conditions may include, but 

are not limited to, requiring the licensee to undergo treatment, attend continuing education courses, 

submit to be reexamined, work under the supervision of another licensee, or satisfy any terms which 

are reasonably tailored to the violations found. 

(g)Corrective action. 

(h)Imposition of an administrative fine in accordance with s. 381 .0261 for violations regarding 

patient rights. 

(i)Refund of fees billed and collected from the patient or a third party on behalf of the patient. 

(j)Requirement that the practitioner undergo remedial education. 

In determining what action is appropriate, the board, or department when there is no board, must 

first consider what sanctions are necessary to protect the public or to compensate the patient. Only 

after those sanctions have been imposed may the disciplining authority consider and include in the 

order requirements designed to rehabilitate the practitioner. All costs associated with compliance with 

orders issued under this subsection are the obligation of the practitioner. 

(3)(a)Notwithstanding subsection (2), if the ground for disciplinary action is the first-time failure of 

the licensee to satisfy continuing education requirements established by the board, or by the 

department if there is no board, the board or department, as applicable, shall issue a citation in 

accordance with s. 456.077 and assess a fine, as determined by the board or department by rule. In 

addition, for each hour of continuing education not completed or completed late, the board or 

department, as applicable, may require the licensee to take 1 additional hour of continuing education 

for each hour not completed or completed late. 

(b)Notwithstanding subsection (2), if the ground for disciplinary action is the first-time violation of 

a practice act for unprofessional conduct, as used in ss. 464.01 8(1 )(h), 467.203(1)(f), 468.365(1)(f), and 

478.52(1 )(f), and no actual harm to the patient occurred, the board or department, as applicable, shall 



issue a citation in accordance with s. 456.077 and assess a penalty as determined by rule of the board 

or department. 

(4)In addition to any other discipline imposed through final order, or citation, entered on or after 

July 1, 2001, under this section or discipline imposed through final order, or citation, entered on or 

after July 1, 2001, for a violation of any practice act, the board, or the department when there is no 

board, shall assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of the case. The costs related to 

the investigation and prosecution include, but are not limited to, salaries and benefits of personnel, 

costs related to the time spent by the attorney and other personnel working on the case, and any other 

expenses incurred by the department for the case. The board, or the department when there is no 

board, shall determine the amount of costs to be assessed after its consideration of an affidavit of 

itemized costs and any written objections thereto. In any case where the board or the department 

imposes a fine or assessment and the fine or assessment is not paid within a reasonable time, the 

reasonable time to be prescribed in the rules of the board, or the department when there is no board, 

or in the order assessing the fines or costs, the department or the Department of Legal Affairs may 

contract for the collection of, or bring a civil action to recover, the fine or assessment. 

(5)In addition to, or in lieu of, any other remedy or criminal prosecution, the department may file 

a proceeding in the name of the state seeking issuance of an injunction or a writ of mandamus against 

any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter, or any provision of law with respect to 

professions regulated by the department, or any board therein, or the rules adopted pursuant thereto. 

(6)If the board, or the department when there is no board, determines that revocation of a license 

is the appropriate penalty, the revocation shall be permanent. However, the board may establish by 

rule requirements for reapplication by applicants whose licenses have been permanently revoked. The 

requirements may include, but are not limited to, satisfying current requirements for an initial license. 

(7)Notwithstanding subsection (2), upon a finding that a physician has prescribed or dispensed a 

controlled substance, or caused a controlled substance to be prescribed or dispensed, in a manner that 

violates the standard of practice set forth in s. 458.331(1 )(q) or (t), s. 459.01 5(1 )(t) or (x), s. 

461 .013(1 )(o) or (s), or s. 466.028(1 )(p) or (x), the physician shall be suspended for a period of not less 

than 6 months and pay a fine of not less than $10,000 per count. Repeated violations shall result in 

increased penalties. 

(8)The purpose of this section is to facilitate uniform discipline for those actions made punishable 

under this section and, to this end, a reference to this section constitutes a general reference under 

the doctrine of incorporation by reference. 

History.—s. 69, ch. 97-261; s. 84, ch. 99-397; s. 90, ch. 2000-160; s. 26, ch. 2000-318; s. 71, ch. 2001 -277; s. 2, ch. 

2002-254; s. 6, ch. 2003-411; s. 19, ch. 2003-416; s. 10, ch. 2004-344; s. 1, ch. 2005-240; s. 2, ch. 2006-207; s. 111, ch. 

2007-5; s. 64, ch. 2008-6; s. 25, ch. 2009-223; s. 3, ch. 2011-112; s. 1, ch. 2011-141. 

Note.—Former s. 455.624. 



456.0721 Practitioners in default on student loan or scholarship obligations; investigation; 

report.—The Department of Health shall obtain from the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services information necessary to investigate and prosecute health care practitioners for failing 

to repay a student loan or comply with scholarship service obligations pursuant to s. 456.072(1 )(k). The 

department shall obtain from the United States Department of Health and Human Services a list of 

default health care practitioners each month, along with the information necessary to investigate a 

complaint in accordance with s. 456.073. The department may obtain evidence to support the 

investigation and prosecution from any financial institution or educational institution involved in 

providing the loan or education to the practitioner. The department shall report to the Legislature as 

part of the annual report required by s. 456.026, the number of practitioners in default, along with the 

results of the department's investigations and prosecutions, and the amount of fines collected from 

practitioners prosecuted for violating s. 456.072(1 )(k). 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2002-254. 

456.O73Disciplinary proceedings.—Disciplinary proceedings for each board shall be within the 

jurisdiction of the department. 

(1 )The department, for the boards under its jurisdiction, shall cause to be investigated any 

complaint that is filed before it if the complaint is in writing, signed by the complainant, and legally 

sufficient. A complaint filed by a state prisoner against a health care practitioner employed by or 

otherwise providing health care services within a facility of the Department of Corrections is not legally 

sufficient unless there is a showing that the prisoner complainant has exhausted all available 

administrative remedies within the state correctional system before filing the complaint. However, if 

the Department of Health determines after a preliminary inquiry of a state prisoner's complaint that 

the practitioner may present a serious threat to the health and safety of any individual who is not a 

state prisoner, the Department of Health may determine legal sufficiency and proceed with discipline. 

The Department of Health shall be notified within 15 days after the Department of Corrections 

disciplines or allows a health care practitioner to resign for an offense related to the practice of his or 

her profession. A complaint is legally sufficient if it contains ultimate facts that show that a violation 

of this chapter, of any of the practice acts relating to the professions regulated by the department, or 

of any rule adopted by the department or a regulatory board in the department has occurred. In order 

to determine legal sufficiency, the department may require supporting information or documentation. 

The department may investigate, and the department or the appropriate board may take appropriate 

final action on, a complaint even though the original complainant withdraws it or otherwise indicates a 

desire not to cause the complaint to be investigated or prosecuted to completion. The department may 

investigate an anonymous complaint if the complaint is in writing and is legally sufficient, if the 

alleged violation of law or rules is substantial, and if the department has reason to believe, after 

preliminary inquiry, that the violations alleged in the complaint are true. The department may 



investigate a complaint made by a confidential informant if the complaint is legally sufficient, if the 

alleged violation of law or rule is substantial, and if the department has reason to believe, after 

preliminary inquiry, that the allegations of the complainant are true. The department may initiate an 

investigation if it has reasonable cause to believe that a licensee or a group of licensees has violated a 

Florida statute, a rule of the department, or a rule of a board. Notwithstanding subsection (13), the 

department may investigate information filed pursuant to s. 456.041 (4) relating to liability actions with 

respect to practitioners licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 which have been reported under s. 

456.049 or s. 627.912 within the previous 6 years for any paid claim that exceeds $50,000. Except as 

provided in ss. 458.331 (9), 459.015(9), 460.413(5), and 461 .013(6), when an investigation of any 

subject is undertaken, the department shall promptly furnish to the subject or the subject's attorney a 

copy of the complaint or document that resulted in the initiation of the investigation. The subject may 

submit a written response to the information contained in such complaint or document within 20 days 

after service to the subject of the complaint or document. The subject's written response shall be 

considered by the probable cause panel. The right to respond does not prohibit the issuance of a 

summary emergency order if necessary to protect the public. However, if the State Surgeon General, 

or the State Surgeon General's designee, and the chair of the respective board or the chair of its 

probable cause panel agree in writing that such notification would be detrimental to the investigation, 

the department may withhold notification. The department may conduct an investigation without 

notification to any subject if the act under investigation is a criminal offense. 

(2)The department shall allocate sufficient and adequately trained staff to expeditiously and 

thoroughly determine legal sufficiency and investigate all legally sufficient complaints. For purposes of 

this section, it is the intent of the Legislature that the term "expeditiously" means that the 

department complete the report of its initial investigative findings and recommendations concerning 

the existence of probable cause within 6 months after its receipt of the complaint. The failure of the 

department, for disciplinary cases under its jurisdiction, to comply with the time limits of this section 

while investigating a complaint against a licensee constitutes harmless error in any subsequent 

disciplinary action unless a court finds that either the fairness of the proceeding or the correctness of 

the action may have been impaired by a material error in procedure or a failure to follow prescribed 

procedure. When its investigation is complete and legally sufficient, the department shall prepare and 

submit to the probable cause panel of the appropriate regulatory board the investigative report of the 

department. The report shall contain the investigative findings and the recommendations of the 

department concerning the existence of probable cause. The department shall not recommend a letter 

of guidance in lieu of finding probable cause if the subject has already been issued a letter of guidance 

for a related offense. At any time after legal sufficiency is found, the department may dismiss any 

case, or any part thereof, if the department determines that there is insufficient evidence to support 

the prosecution of allegations contained therein. The department shall provide a detailed report to the 

appropriate probable cause panel prior to dismissal of any case or part thereof, and to the subject of 



the complaint after dismissal of any case or part thereof, under this section. For cases dismissed prior 

to a finding of probable cause, such report is confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1). The probable 

cause panel shall have access, upon request, to the investigative files pertaining to a case prior to 

dismissal of such case. If the department dismisses a case, the probable cause panel may retain 

independent legal counsel, employ investigators, and continue the investigation and prosecution of the 

case as it deems necessary. 

(3)As an alternative to the provisions of subsections (1) and (2), when a complaint is received, the 

department may provide a licensee with a notice of noncompliance for an initial offense of a minor 

violation. Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall establish by rule those minor 

violations under this provision which do not endanger the public health, safety, and welfare and which 

do not demonstrate a serious inability to practice the profession. Failure of a licensee to take action in 

correcting the violation within 15 days after notice may result in the institution of regular disciplinary 

proceedings. 

(4)The determination as to whether probable cause exists shall be made by majority vote of a 

probable cause panel of the board, or by the department, as appropriate. Each regulatory board shall 

provide by rule that the determination of probable cause shall be made by a panel of its members or by 

the department. Each board may provide by rule for multiple probable cause panels composed of at 

least two members. Each board may provide by rule that one or more members of the panel or panels 

may be a former board member. The length of term or repetition of service of any such former board 

member on a probable cause panel may vary according to the direction of the board when authorized 

by board rule. Any probable cause panel must include one of the board's former or present consumer 

members, if one is available, is willing to serve, and is authorized to do so by the board chair. Any 

probable cause panel must include a present board member. Any probable cause panel must include a 

former or present professional board member. However, any former professional board member serving 

on the probable cause panel must hold an active valid license for that profession. All proceedings of 

the panel are exempt from s. 286.011 until 10 days after probable cause has been found to exist by the 

panel or until the subject of the investigation waives his or her privilege of confidentiality. The 

probable cause panel may make a reasonable request, and upon such request the department shall 

provide such additional investigative information as is necessary to the determination of probable 

cause. A request for additional investigative information shall be made within 1 5 days from the date of 

receipt by the probable cause panel of the investigative report of the department or the agency. The 

probable cause panel or the department, as may be appropriate, shall make its determination of 

probable cause within 30 days after receipt by it of the final investigative report of the department. 

The State Surgeon General may grant extensions of the 15-day and the 30-day time limits. In lieu of a 

finding of probable cause, the probable cause panel, or the department if there is no board, may issue 

a letter of guidance to the subject. If, within the 30-day time limit, as may be extended, the probable 

cause panel does not make a determination regarding the existence of probable cause or does not issue 



a letter of guidance in lieu of a finding of probable cause, the department must make a determination 

regarding the existence of probable cause within 10 days after the expiration of the time limit. If the 

probable cause panel finds that probable cause exists, it shall direct the department to file a formal 

complaint against the licensee. The department shall follow the directions of the probable cause panel 

regarding the filing of a formal complaint. If directed to do so, the department shall file a formal 

complaint against the subject of the investigation and prosecute that complaint pursuant to chapter 

120. However, the department may decide not to prosecute the complaint if it finds that probable 

cause has been improvidently found by the panel. In such cases, the department shall refer the matter 

to the board. The board may then file a formal complaint and prosecute the complaint pursuant to 

chapter 120. The department shall also refer to the board any investigation or disciplinary proceeding 

not before the Division of Administrative Hearings pursuant to chapter 120 or otherwise completed by 

the department within 1 year after the filing of a complaint. The department, for disciplinary cases 

under its jurisdiction, must establish a uniform reporting system to quarterly refer to each board the 

status of any investigation or disciplinary proceeding that is not before the Division of Administrative 

Hearings or otherwise completed by the department within 1 year after the filing of the complaint. 

Annually, the department, in consultation with the applicable probable cause panel, must establish a 

plan to expedite or otherwise close any investigation or disciplinary proceeding that is not before the 

Division of Administrative Hearings or otherwise completed by the department within 1 year after the 

filing of the complaint. A probable cause panel or a board may retain independent legal counsel, 

employ investigators, and continue the investigation as it deems necessary; all costs thereof shall be 

paid from a trust fund used by the department to implement this chapter. All proceedings of the 

probable cause panel are exempt from s. 120.525. 

(5)A formal hearing before an administrative law judge from the Division of Administrative 

Hearings shall be held pursuant to chapter 120 if there are any disputed issues of material fact. The 

determination of whether or not a licensee has violated the laws and rules regulating the profession, 

including a determination of the reasonable standard of care, is a conclusion of law to be determined 

by the board, or department when there is no board, and is not a finding of fact to be determined by 

an administrative law judge. The administrative law judge shall issue a recommended order pursuant 

to chapter 120. Notwithstanding s. 120.569(2), the department shall notify the division within 45 days 

after receipt of a petition or request for a formal hearing. 

(6)The appropriate board, with those members of the panel, if any, who reviewed the investigation 

pursuant to subsection (4) being excused, or the department when there is no board, shall determine 

and issue the final order in each disciplinary case. Such order shall constitute final agency action. Any 

consent order or agreed-upon settlement shall be subject to the approval of the department. 

(7)The department shall have standing to seek judicial review of any final order of the board, 

pursuant to s. 120.68. 

(8)Any proceeding for the purpose of summary suspension of a license, or for the restriction of the 



license, of a licensee pursuant to s. 120.60(6) shall be conducted by the State Surgeon General or his or 

her designee, as appropriate, who shall issue the final summary order. 

(9)(a)The department shall periodically notify the person who filed the complaint, as well as the 

patient or the patient's legal representative, of the status of the investigation, indicating whether 

probable cause has been found and the status of any civil action or administrative proceeding or 

appeal. 

(b)In any disciplinary case for which probable cause has been found, the department shall provide 

to the person who filed the complaint a copy of the administrative complaint and: 

1 .A written explanation of how an administrative complaint is resolved by the disciplinary process. 

2.A written explanation of how and when the person may participate in the disciplinary process. 

3.A written notice of any hearing before the Division of Administrative Hearings or the regulatory 

board at which final agency action may be taken. 

(c)In any disciplinary case for which probable cause is not found, the department shall so inform 

the person who filed the complaint and notify that person that he or she may, within 60 days, provide 

any additional information to the department which may be relevant to the decision. To facilitate the 

provision of additional information, the person who filed the complaint may receive, upon request, a 

copy of the department's expert report that supported the recommendation for closure, if such a 

report was relied upon by the department. In no way does this require the department to procure an 

expert opinion or report if none was used. Additionally, the identity of the expert shall remain 

confidential. In any administrative proceeding under s. 120.57, the person who filed the disciplinary 

complaint shall have the right to present oral or written communication relating to the alleged 

disciplinary violations or to the appropriate penalty. 

(10)The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the department 

are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) until 10 days after probable cause has been found to 

exist by the probable cause panel or by the department, or until the regulated professional or subject 

of the investigation waives his or her privilege of confidentiality, whichever occurs first. Upon 

completion of the investigation and a recommendation by the department to find probable cause, and 

pursuant to a written request by the subject or the subject's attorney, the department shall provide 

the subject an opportunity to inspect the investigative file or, at the subject's expense, forward to the 

subject a copy of the investigative file. Notwithstanding s. 456.057, the subject may inspect or receive 

a copy of any expert witness report or patient record connected with the investigation if the subject 

agrees in writing to maintain the confidentiality of any information received under this subsection until 

10 days after probable cause is found and to maintain the confidentiality of patient records pursuant to 

s. 456.057. The subject may file a written response to the information contained in the investigative 

file. Such response must be filed within 20 days of mailing by the department, unless an extension of 

time has been granted by the department. This subsection does not prohibit the department from 

providing such information to any law enforcement agency or to any other regulatory agency. 



(11 )A privilege against civil liability is hereby granted to any complainant or any witness with 

regard to information furnished with respect to any investigation or proceeding pursuant to this 

section, unless the complainant or witness acted in bad faith or with malice in providing such 

information. 

(12)(a)No person who reports in any capacity, whether or not required by law, information to the 

department with regard to the incompetence, impairment, or unprofessional conduct of any health 

care provider licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 462, chapter 

463, chapter 464, chapter 465, or chapter 466 shall be held liable in any civil action for reporting 

against such health care provider if such person acts without intentional fraud or malice. 

(b)No facility licensed under chapter 395, health maintenance organization certificated under part 

I of chapter 641, physician licensed under chapter 458, or osteopathic physician licensed under chapter 

459 shall discharge, threaten to discharge, intimidate, or coerce any employee or staff member by 

reason of such employee's or staff member's report to the department about a physician licensed 

under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, or chapter 466 who may be guilty of 

incompetence, impairment, or unprofessional conduct so long as such report is given without 

intentional fraud or malice. 

(c)In any civil suit brought outside the protections of paragraphs (a) and (b) in which intentional 

fraud or malice is alleged, the person alleging intentional fraud or malice shall be liable for all court 

costs and for the other party's reasonable attorney's fees if intentional fraud or malice is not proved. 

(13)Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, an administrative complaint against a 

licensee shall be filed within 6 years after the time of the incident or occurrence giving rise to the 

complaint against the licensee. If such incident or occurrence involved criminal actions, diversion of 

controlled substances, sexual misconduct, or impairment by the licensee, this subsection does not 

apply to bar initiation of an investigation or filing of an administrative complaint beyond the 6-year 

timeframe. In those cases covered by this subsection in which it can be shown that fraud, 

concealment, or intentional misrepresentation of fact prevented the discovery of the violation of law, 

the period of limitations is extended forward, but in no event to exceed 12 years after the time of the 

incident or occurrence. 

History.—s. 68, ch. 97-261; s. 23, ch. 99-7; s. 114, ch. 2000-153; s. 91, ch. 2000-160; ss. 14, 72, ch. 2001-277; s. 5, ch. 

2002-254; s. 1, ch. 2003-27; s. 20, ch. 2003-416; s. 65, ch. 2008-6. 

Note.—Former s. 455.621. 

456.O74Certain health care practitioners; immediate suspension of license.— 

(1 )The department shall issue an emergency order suspending the license of any person licensed 

under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter 460, chapter 461, chapter 462, chapter 463, chapter 464, 

chapter 465, chapter 466, or chapter 484 who pleads guilty to, is convicted or found guilty of, or who 

enters a plea of nob contendere to, regardless of adjudication, to: 



(a)A felony under chapter 409, chapter 817, or chapter 893 or under 21 U.S.C. ss. 801 -970 or under 

42 U.S.C. ss. 1395-1396; or 

(b)A misdemeanor or felony under 18 U.S.C. s. 669, ss. 285-287, s. 371, s. 1001, s. 1035, s. 1341, s. 

1343, s. 1347, s. 1349, or s. 1518 or 42 u.s.c. ss. 1320a-7b, relating to the Medicaid program. 

(2)If the board has previously found any physician or osteopathic physician in violation of the 

provisions of s. 458.331 (1 )(t) or s. 459.015(1 )(x), in regard to her or his treatment of three or more 

patients, and the probable cause panel of the board finds probable cause of an additional violation of 

that section, then the State Surgeon General shall review the matter to determine if an emergency 

suspension or restriction order is warranted. Nothing in this section shall be construed so as to limit the 

authority of the State Surgeon General to issue an emergency order. 

(3)The department may issue an emergency order suspending or restricting the license of any 

health care practitioner as defined in s. 456.001 (4) who tests positive for any drug on any government 

or private sector preemployment or employer-ordered confirmed drug test, as defined in s. 112.0455, 

when the practitioner does not have a lawful prescription and legitimate medical reason for using such 

drug. The practitioner shall be given 48 hours from the time of notification to the practitioner of the 

confirmed test result to produce a lawful prescription for the drug before an emergency order is 

issued. 

(4)Upon receipt of information that a Florida-licensed health care practitioner has defaulted on a 

student loan issued or guaranteed by the state or the Federal Government, the department shall notify 

the licensee by certified mail that he or she shall be subject to immediate suspension of license unless, 

within 45 days after the date of mailing, the licensee provides proof that new payment terms have 

been agreed upon by all parties to the loan. The department shall issue an emergency order suspending 

the license of any licensee who, after 45 days following the date of mailing from the department, has 

failed to provide such proof. Production of such proof shall not prohibit the department from 

proceeding with disciplinary action against the licensee pursuant to s. 456.073. 

History.—s. 88, ch. 97-261; s. 25, ch. 99-7; s. 87, ch. 99-397; s. 92, ch. 2000-160; s. 73, ch. 2001 -277; s. 1, ch. 2002- 

254; s. 66, ch. 2008-6; s. 26, ch. 2009-223. 

Note.—Former s. 455.687. 

456.O75Criminal proceedings against licensees; appearances by department representatives.— 

In any criminal proceeding against a person licensed by the department to practice a health care 

profession in this state, a representative of the department may voluntarily appear and furnish 

pertinent information, make recommendations regarding specific conditions of probation, or provide 

any other assistance necessary to promote justice or protect the public. The court may order a 

representative of the department to appear in any criminal proceeding if the crime charged is 

substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a health care professional licensed by 

the department. 



History.—s. 1, ch. 2002-81. 

456.O76Treatment programs for impaired practitioners.— 

(1 )For professions that do not have impaired practitioner programs provided for in their practice 

acts, the department shall, by rule, designate approved impaired practitioner programs under this 

section. The department may adopt rules setting forth appropriate criteria for approval of treatment 

providers. The rules may specify the manner in which the consultant, retained as set forth in 

subsection (2), works with the department in intervention, requirements for evaluating and treating a 

professional, requirements for continued care of impaired professionals by approved treatment 

providers, continued monitoring by the consultant of the care provided by approved treatment 

providers regarding the professionals under their care, and requirements related to the consultant's 

expulsion of professionals from the program. 

(2)The department shall retain one or more impaired practitioner consultants. The consultant shall 

be a licensee under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance within the department 

who must be a practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I 

of chapter 464, or an entity employing a medical director who must be a practitioner or recovered 

practitioner licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter 464. The consultant shall 

assist the probable cause panel and department in carrying out the responsibilities of this section. This 

shall include working with department investigators to determine whether a practitioner is, in fact, 

impaired. The consultant may contract for services to be provided, for appropriate compensation, if 

requested by the school, for students enrolled in schools for licensure as allopathic physicians or 

physician assistants under chapter 458, osteopathic physicians or physician assistants under chapter 

459, nurses under chapter 464, or pharmacists under chapter 465 who are alleged to be impaired as a 

result of the misuse or abuse of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or physical condition. The 

department is not responsible under any circumstances for paying the costs of care provided by 

approved treatment providers, and the department is not responsible for paying the costs of 

consultants' services provided for students. A medical school accredited by the Liaison Committee on 

Medical Education of the Commission on Osteopathic College Accreditation, or other school providing 

for the education of students enrolled in preparation for licensure as allopathic physicians under 

chapter 458 or osteopathic physicians under chapter 459, which is governed by accreditation standards 

requiring notice and the provision of due process procedures to students, is not liable in any civil action 

for referring a student to the consultant retained by the department or for disciplinary actions that 

adversely affect the status of a student when the disciplinary actions are instituted in reasonable 

reliance on the recommendations, reports, or conclusions provided by such consultant, if the school, in 

referring the student or taking disciplinary action, adheres to the due process procedures adopted by 

the applicable accreditation entities and if the school committed no intentional fraud in carrying out 

the provisions of this section. 



(3)(a)Whenever the department receives a written or oral legally sufficient complaint alleging that 

a licensee under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical Quality Assurance within the department is 

impaired as a result of the misuse or abuse of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or physical 

condition which could affect the licensee's ability to practice with skill and safety, and no complaint 

against the licensee other than impairment exists, the reporting of such information shall not 

constitute grounds for discipline pursuant to s. 456.072 or the corresponding grounds for discipline 

within the applicable practice act if the probable cause panel of the appropriate board, or the 

department when there is no board, finds: 

1 .The licensee has acknowledged the impairment problem. 

2.The licensee has voluntarily enrolled in an appropriate, approved treatment program. 

3.The licensee has voluntarily withdrawn from practice or limited the scope of practice as required 

by the consultant, in each case, until such time as the panel, or the department when there is no 

board, is satisfied the licensee has successfully completed an approved treatment program. 

4.The licensee has executed releases for medical records, authorizing the release of all records of 

evaluations, diagnoses, and treatment of the licensee, including records of treatment for emotional or 

mental conditions, to the consultant. The consultant shall make no copies or reports of records that do 

not regard the issue of the licensee's impairment and his or her participation in a treatment program. 

(b)If, however, the department has not received a legally sufficient complaint and the licensee 

agrees to withdraw from practice until such time as the consultant determines the licensee has 

satisfactorily completed an approved treatment program or evaluation, the probable cause panel, or 

the department when there is no board, shall not become involved in the licensee's case. 

(c)Inquiries related to impairment treatment programs designed to provide information to the 

licensee and others and which do not indicate that the licensee presents a danger to the public shall 

not constitute a complaint within the meaning of s. 456.073 and shall be exempt from the provisions of 

this subsection. 

(d)Whenever the department receives a legally sufficient complaint alleging that a licensee is 

impaired as described in paragraph (a) and no complaint against the licensee other than impairment 

exists, the department shall forward all information in its possession regarding the impaired licensee to 

the consultant. For the purposes of this section, a suspension from hospital staff privileges due to the 

impairment does not constitute a complaint. 

(e)The probable cause panel, or the department when there is no board, shall work directly with 

the consultant, and all information concerning a practitioner obtained from the consultant by the 

panel, or the department when there is no board, shall remain confidential and exempt from the 

provisions of s. 119.07(1), subject to the provisions of subsections (5) and (6). 

(f)A finding of probable cause shall not be made as long as the panel, or the department when 

there is no board, is satisfied, based upon information it receives from the consultant and the 

department, that the licensee is progressing satisfactorily in an approved impaired practitioner 



program and no other complaint against the licensee exists. 

(4)In any disciplinary action for a violation other than impairment in which a licensee establishes 

the violation for which the licensee is being prosecuted was due to or connected with impairment and 

further establishes the licensee is satisfactorily progressing through or has successfully completed an 

approved treatment program pursuant to this section, such information may be considered by the 

board, or the department when there is no board, as a mitigating factor in determining the appropriate 

penalty. This subsection does not limit mitigating factors the board may consider. 

(5)(a)An approved treatment provider shall, upon request, disclose to the consultant all 

information in its possession regarding the issue of a licensee's impairment and participation in the 

treatment program. All information obtained by the consultant and department pursuant to this section 

is confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1), subject to the provisions of this 

subsection and subsection (6). Failure to provide such information to the consultant is grounds for 

withdrawal of approval of such program or provider. 

(b)If in the opinion of the consultant, after consultation with the treatment provider, an impaired 

licensee has not progressed satisfactorily in a treatment program, all information regarding the issue of 

a licensee's impairment and participation in a treatment program in the consultant's possession shall 

be disclosed to the department. Such disclosure shall constitute a complaint pursuant to the general 

provisions of s. 456.073. Whenever the consultant concludes that impairment affects a licensee's 

practice and constitutes an immediate, serious danger to the public health, safety, or welfare, that 

conclusion shall be communicated to the State Surgeon General. 

(6)A consultant, licensee, or approved treatment provider who makes a disclosure pursuant to this 

section is not subject to civil liability for such disclosure or its consequences. The provisions of s. 

766.101 apply to any officer, employee, or agent of the department or the board and to any officer, 

employee, or agent of any entity with which the department has contracted pursuant to this section. 

(7)(a)A consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2), a consultant's officers and employees, and 

those acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on 

behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform 

such intervention shall be considered agents of the department for purposes of s. 768.28 while acting 

within the scope of the consultant's duties under the contract with the department if the contract 

complies with the requirements of this section. The contract must require that: 

1 .The consultant indemnify the state for any liabilities incurred up to the limits set out in chapter 

768. 

2.The consultant establish a quality assurance program to monitor services delivered under the 

contract. 

3.The consultant's quality assurance program, treatment, and monitoring records be evaluated 

quarterly. 

4.The consultant's quality assurance program be subject to review and approval by the 



department. 

5.The consultant operate under policies and procedures approved by the department. 

6.The consultant provide to the department for approval a policy and procedure manual that 

comports with all statutes, rules, and contract provisions approved by the department. 

7.The department be entitled to review the records relating to the consultant's performance under 

the contract for the purpose of management audits, financial audits, or program evaluation. 

8.All performance measures and standards be subject to verification and approval by the 

department. 

9.The department be entitled to terminate the contract with the consultant for noncompliance 

with the contract. 

(b)In accordance with s. 284.385, the Department of Financial Services shall defend any claim, 

suit, action, or proceeding against the consultant, the consultant's officers or employees, or those 

acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on 

behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform 

such intervention which is brought as a result of any act or omission by any of the consultant's officers 

and employees and those acting under the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an 

emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the 

consultant is unable to perform such intervention when such act or omission arises out of and in the 

scope of the consultant's duties under its contract with the department. 

(c)If the consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2) is retained by any other state agency, and 

if the contract between such state agency and the consultant complies with the requirements of this 

section, the consultant, the consultant's officers and employees, and those acting under the direction 

of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or 

student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to perform such intervention shall 

be considered agents of the state for the purposes of this section while acting within the scope of and 

pursuant to guidelines established in the contract between such state agency and the consultant. 

History.—s. 38, ch. 92-149; s. 1, ch. 95-139; s. 310, ch. 96-406; s. 1085, ch. 97-103; s. 3, ch. 97-209; s. 94, ch. 97-261; 

s. 2, ch. 98-130; s. 94, ch. 2000-160; ss. 29, 117, ch. 2000-318; s. 67, ch. 2008-6; s. 1, ch. 2008-63. 

Note.—Former s. 455.261; s. 455.707. 

456.O77Authority to issue citations.— 

(1 )Notwithstanding s. 456.073, the board, or the department if there is no board, shall adopt rules 

to permit the issuance of citations. The citation shall be issued to the subject and shall contain the 

subject's name and address, the subject's license number if applicable, a brief factual statement, the 

sections of the law allegedly violated, and the penalty imposed. The citation must clearly state that 

the subject may choose, in lieu of accepting the citation, to follow the procedure under s. 456.073. If 

the subject disputes the matter in the citation, the procedures set forth in s. 456.073 must be 



followed. However, if the subject does not dispute the matter in the citation with the department 

within 30 days after the citation is served, the citation becomes a public final order and does not 

constitute discipline for a first offense, but does constitute discipline for a second or subsequent 

offense. The penalty shall be a fine or other conditions as established by rule. 

(2)The board, or the department if there is no board, shall adopt rules designating violations for 

which a citation may be issued. Such rules shall designate as citation violations those violations for 

which there is no substantial threat to the public health, safety, and welfare or no violation of 

standard of care involving injury to a patient. Violations for which a citation may be issued shall 

include violations of continuing education requirements; failure to timely pay required fees and fines; 

failure to comply with the requirements of ss. 381 .026 and 381 .0261 regarding the dissemination of 

information regarding patient rights; failure to comply with advertising requirements; failure to timely 

update practitioner profile and credentialing files; failure to display signs, licenses, and permits; 

failure to have required reference books available; and all other violations that do not pose a direct 

and serious threat to the health and safety of the patient or involve a violation of standard of care that 

has resulted in injury to a patient. 

(3)The department shall be entitled to recover the costs of investigation, in addition to any 

penalty provided according to board or department rule, as part of the penalty levied pursuant to the 

citation. 

(4)A citation must be issued within 6 months after the filing of the complaint that is the basis for 

the citation. 

(5)Service of a citation may be made by personal service or certified mail, restricted delivery, to 

the subject at the subject's last known address. 

(6)A board has 6 months in which to enact rules designating violations and penalties appropriate 

for citation offenses. Failure to enact such rules gives the department exclusive authority to adopt 

rules as required for implementing this section. A board has continuous authority to amend its rules 

adopted pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 67, ch. 97-261; s. 95, ch. 2000-160; s. 74, ch. 2001 -277; s. 21, ch. 2003-416. 

Note.—Former s. 455.617. 

456.O78Mediation.— 

(1 )Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 456.073, the board, or the department when there is no 

board, shall adopt rules to designate which violations of the applicable professional practice act are 

appropriate for mediation. The board, or the department when there is no board, shall designate as 

mediation offenses those complaints where harm caused by the licensee: 

(a)Is economic in nature except any act or omission involving intentional misconduct; 

(b)Can be remedied by the licensee; 

(c)Is not a standard of care violation involving any type of injury to a patient; or 



(d)Does not result in an adverse incident. 

(2)For the purposes of this section, an "adverse incident" means an event that results in: 

(a)The death of a patient; 

(b)Brain or spinal damage to a patient; 

(c)The performance of a surgical procedure on the wrong patient; 

(d)The performance of a wrong-site surgical procedure; 

(e)The performance of a surgical procedure that is medically unnecessary or otherwise unrelated 

to the patient's diagnosis or medical condition; 

(f)The surgical repair of damage to a patient resulting from a planned surgical procedure, which 

damage is not a recognized specific risk as disclosed to the patient and documented through the 

informed-consent process; 

(g)The performance of a procedure to remove unplanned foreign objects remaining from a surgical 

procedure; or 

(h)The performance of any other surgical procedure that breached the standard of care. 

(3)After the department determines a complaint is legally sufficient and the alleged violations are 

defined as mediation offenses, the department or any agent of the department may conduct informal 

mediation to resolve the complaint. If the complainant and the subject of the complaint agree to a 

resolution of a complaint within 14 days after contact by the mediator, the mediator shall notify the 

department of the terms of the resolution. The department or board shall take no further action unless 

the complainant and the subject each fail to record with the department an acknowledgment of 

satisfaction of the terms of mediation within 60 days of the mediator's notification to the department. 

A successful mediation shall not constitute discipline. In the event the complainant and subject fail to 

reach settlement terms or to record the required acknowledgment, the department shall process the 

complaint according to the provisions of s. 456.073. 

(4)Conduct or statements made during mediation are inadmissible in any proceeding pursuant to s. 

456.073. Further, any information relating to the mediation of a case shall be subject to the 

confidentiality provisions of s. 456.073. 

(5)No licensee shall go through the mediation process more than three times without approval of 

the department. The department may consider the subject and dates of the earlier complaints in 

rendering its decision. Such decision shall not be considered a final agency action for purposes of 

chapter 120. 

(6)Any board created on or after January 1, 1995, shall have 6 months to adopt rules designating 

which violations are appropriate for mediation, after which time the department shall have exclusive 

authority to adopt rules pursuant to this section. A board shall have continuing authority to amend its 

rules adopted pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 66, ch. 97-261; s. 96, ch. 2000-160; s. 22, ch. 2003-416. 

Note.—Former s. 455.614. 



456.O79Disciplinary guidelines.— 

(1 )Each board, or the department if there is no board, shall adopt by rule and periodically review 

the disciplinary guidelines applicable to each ground for disciplinary action which may be imposed by 

the board, or the department if there is no board, pursuant to this chapter, the respective practice 

acts, and any rule of the board or department. 

(2)The disciplinary guidelines shall specify a meaningful range of designated penalties based upon 

the severity and repetition of specific offenses, it being the legislative intent that minor violations be 

distinguished from those which endanger the public health, safety, or welfare; that such guidelines 

provide reasonable and meaningful notice to the public of likely penalties which may be imposed for 

proscribed conduct; and that such penalties be consistently applied by the board. 

(3)A specific finding in the final order of mitigating or aggravating circumstances shall allow the 

board to impose a penalty other than that provided for in such guidelines. If applicable, the board, or 

the department if there is no board, shall adopt by rule disciplinary guidelines to designate possible 

mitigating and aggravating circumstances and the variation and range of penalties permitted for such 

circumstances. 

(4)The department must review such disciplinary guidelines for compliance with the legislative 

intent as set forth herein to determine whether the guidelines establish a meaningful range of 

penalties and may also challenge such rules pursuant to s. 120.56. 

(5)The administrative law judge, in recommending penalties in any recommended order, must 

follow the penalty guidelines established by the board or department and must state in writing the 

mitigating or aggravating circumstances upon which the recommended penalty is based. 

History.—s. 70, ch. 97-261; s. 97, ch. 2000-160; s. 16, ch. 2001 -277. 

Note.—FOrmer s. 455.627. 

456.081 Publication of information.—The department and the boards shall have the authority to 

advise licensees periodically, through the publication of a newsletter on the department's website, 

about information that the department or the board determines is of interest to the industry. The 

department and the boards shall maintain a website which contains copies of the newsletter; 

information relating to adverse incident reports without identifying the patient, practitioner, or facility 

in which the adverse incident occurred until 10 days after probable cause is found, at which time the 

name of the practitioner and facility shall become public as part of the investigative file; information 

about error prevention and safety strategies; and information concerning best practices. Unless 

otherwise prohibited by law, the department and the boards shall publish on the website a summary of 

final orders entered after July 1, 2001, resulting in disciplinary action, and any other information the 

department or the board determines is of interest to the public. In order to provide useful and timely 

information at minimal cost, the department and boards may consult with, and include information 

provided by, professional associations and national organizations. 





pain, injury, deformity, or other physical or mental condition. It is the intent of the Legislature that 

citizens be able to choose from all health care options, including the prevailing or conventional 

treatment methods as well as other treatments designed to complement or substitute for the prevailing 

or conventional treatment methods. It is the intent of the Legislature that health care practitioners be 

able to offer complementary or alternative health care treatments with the same requirements, 

provisions, and liabilities as those associated with the prevailing or conventional treatment methods. 

(2)DEFINITIONS.—As used in this section, the term: 

(a)"Complementary or alternative health care treatment" means any treatment that is designed to 

provide patients with an effective option to the prevailing or conventional treatment methods 

associated with the services provided by a health care practitioner. Such a treatment may be provided 

in addition to or in place of other treatment options. 

(b)"Health care practitioner" means any health care practitioner as defined in s. 456.001 (4). 

(3)COMMUNICATION OF TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES.—A health care practitioner who offers to 

provide a patient with a complementary or alternative health care treatment must inform the patient 

of the nature of the treatment and must explain the benefits and risks associated with the treatment 

to the extent necessary for the patient to make an informed and prudent decision regarding such 

treatment option. In compliance with this subsection: 

(a)The health care practitioner must inform the patient of the practitioner's education, 

experience, and credentials in relation to the complementary or alternative health care treatment 

option. 

(b)The health care practitioner may, in his or her discretion, communicate the information orally 

or in written form directly to the patient or to the patient's legal representative. 

(c)The health care practitioner may, in his or her discretion and without restriction, recommend 

any mode of treatment that is, in his or her judgment, in the best interests of the patient, including 

complementary or alternative health care treatments, in accordance with the provisions of his or her 

license. 

(4)RECORDS.—Every health care practitioner providing a patient with a complementary or 

alternative health care treatment must indicate in the patient's care record the method by which the 

requirements of subsection (3) were met. 

(5)EFFECT.—This section does not modify or change the scope of practice of any licensees of the 

department, nor does it alter in any way the provisions of the individual practice acts for those 

licensees, which require licensees to practice within their respective standards of care and which 

prohibit fraud and exploitation of patients. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2001-116. 

456.42Written prescriptions for medicinal drugs.— 

(1 )A written prescription for a medicinal drug issued by a health care practitioner licensed by law 



to prescribe such drug must be legibly printed or typed so as to be capable of being understood by the 

pharmacist filling the prescription; must contain the name of the prescribing practitioner, the name 

and strength of the drug prescribed, the quantity of the drug prescribed, and the directions for use of 

the drug; must be dated; and must be signed by the prescribing practitioner on the day when issued. 

However, a prescription that is electronically generated and transmitted must contain the name of the 

prescribing practitioner, the name and strength of the drug prescribed, the quantity of the drug 

prescribed in numerical format, and the directions for use of the drug and must be dated and signed by 

the prescribing practitioner only on the day issued, which signature may be in an electronic format as 

defined in s. 668.003(4). 

(2)A written prescription for a controlled substance listed in chapter 893 must have the quantity of 

the drug prescribed in both textual and numerical formats, must be dated with the abbreviated month 

written out on the face of the prescription, and must be either written on a standardized counterfeit- 

proof prescription pad produced by a vendor approved by the department or electronically prescribed 

as that term is used in s. 408.0611. As a condition of being an approved vendor, a prescription pad 

vendor must submit a monthly report to the department which, at a minimum, documents the number 

of prescription pads sold and identifies the purchasers. The department may, by rule, require the 

reporting of additional information. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 2003-41; s. 2, ch. 2006-271; s. 2, ch. 2009-202; s. 2, ch. 2011-141. 

456.43 Electronic prescribing for medicinal drugs.— 

(1 )Electronic prescribing shall not interfere with a patient's freedom to choose a pharmacy. 

(2)Electronic prescribing software shall not use any means or permit any other person to use any 

means, including, but not limited to, advertising, instant messaging, and pop-up ads, to influence or 

attempt to influence, through economic incentives or otherwise, the prescribing decision of a 

prescribing practitioner at the point of care. Such means shall not be triggered or in specific response 

to the input, selection, or act of a prescribing practitioner or his or her agent in prescribing a certain 

pharmaceutical or directing a patient to a certain pharmacy. 

(a)The term "prescribing decision" means a prescribing practitioner's decision to prescribe a 

certain pharmaceutical. 

(b)The term "point of care" means the time that a prescribing practitioner or his or her agent is in 

the act of prescribing a certain pharmaceutical. 

(3)Electronic prescribing software may show information regarding a payor's formulary as long as 

nothing is designed to preclude or make more difficult the act of a prescribing practitioner or patient 

selecting any particular pharmacy or pharmaceutical. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2006-271. 

456.44Controlled substance prescribing.— 

(1 )DEFINITIONS.— 



(a)"Addiction medicine specialist" means a board-certified psychiatrist with a subspecialty 

certification in addiction medicine or who is eligible for such subspecialty certification in addiction 

medicine, an addiction medicine physician certified or eligible for certification by the American Society 

of Addiction Medicine, or an osteopathic physician who holds a certificate of added qualification in 

Addiction Medicine through the American Osteopathic Association. 

(b)"Adverse incident" means any incident set forth ins. 458.351(4)(a)-(e) or s. 459.026(4)(a)-(e). 

(c)"Board-certified pain management physician" means a physician who possesses board 

certification in pain medicine by the American Board of Pain Medicine, board certification by the 

American Board of Interventional Pain Physicians, or board certification or subcertification in pain 

management or pain medicine by a specialty board recognized by the American Association of Physician 

Specialists or the American Board of Medical Specialties or an osteopathic physician who holds a 

certificate in Pain Management by the American Osteopathic Association. 

(d)"Board eligible" means successful completion of an anesthesia, physical medicine and 

rehabilitation, rheumatology, or neurology residency program approved by the Accreditation Council 

for Graduate Medical Education or the American Osteopathic Association for a period of 6 years from 

successful completion of such residency program. 

(e)"Chronic nonmalignant pain" means pain unrelated to cancer which persists beyond the usual 

course of disease or the injury that is the cause of the pain or more than 90 days after surgery. 

(f)"Mental health addiction facility" means a facility licensed under chapter 394 or chapter 397. 

(2)REGISTRATION.—Effective January 1, 2012, a physician licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, 

chapter 461, or chapter 466 who prescribes any controlled substance, listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, 

or Schedule IV as defined in s. 893.03, for the treatment of chronic nonmalignant pain, must: 

(a)Designate himself or herself as a controlled substance prescribing practitioner on the physician's 

practitioner profile. 

(b)Comply with the requirements of this section and applicable board rules. 

(3)STANDARDS OF PRACTICE.—The standards of practice in this section do not supersede the level 

of care, skill, and treatment recognized in general law related to health care licensure. 

(a)A complete medical history and a physical examination must be conducted before beginning any 

treatment and must be documented in the medical record. The exact components of the physical 

examination shall be left to the judgment of the clinician who is expected to perform a physical 

examination proportionate to the diagnosis that justifies a treatment. The medical record must, at a 

minimum, document the nature and intensity of the pain, current and past treatments for pain, 

underlying or coexisting diseases or conditions, the effect of the pain on physical and psychological 

function, a review of previous medical records, previous diagnostic studies, and history of alcohol and 

substance abuse. The medical record shall also document the presence of one or more recognized 

medical indications for the use of a controlled substance. Each registrant must develop a written plan 

for assessing each patient's risk of aberrant drug-related behavior, which may include patient drug 



testing. Registrants must assess each patient's risk for aberrant drug-related behavior and monitor that 

risk on an ongoing basis in accordance with the plan. 

(b)Each registrant must develop a written individualized treatment plan for each patient. The 

treatment plan shall state objectives that will be used to determine treatment success, such as pain 

relief and improved physical and psychosocial function, and shall indicate if any further diagnostic 

evaluations or other treatments are planned. After treatment begins, the physician shall adjust drug 

therapy to the individual medical needs of each patient. Other treatment modalities, including a 

rehabilitation program, shall be considered depending on the etiology of the pain and the extent to 

which the pain is associated with physical and psychosocial impairment. The interdisciplinary nature of 

the treatment plan shall be documented. 

(c)The physician shall discuss the risks and benefits of the use of controlled substances, including 

the risks of abuse and addiction, as well as physical dependence and its consequences, with the 

patient, persons designated by the patient, or the patient's surrogate or guardian if the patient is 

incompetent. The physician shall use a written controlled substance agreement between the physician 

and the patient outlining the patient's responsibilities, including, but not limited to: 

1 .Number and frequency of controlled substance prescriptions and refills. 

2.Patient compliance and reasons for which drug therapy may be discontinued, such as a violation 

of the agreement. 

3.An agreement that controlled substances for the treatment of chronic nonmalignant pain shall be 

prescribed by a single treating physician unless otherwise authorized by the treating physician and 

documented in the medical record. 

(d)The patient shall be seen by the physician at regular intervals, not to exceed 3 months, to 

assess the efficacy of treatment, ensure that controlled substance therapy remains indicated, evaluate 

the patient's progress toward treatment objectives, consider adverse drug effects, and review the 

etiology of the pain. Continuation or modification of therapy shall depend on the physician's evaluation 

of the patient's progress. If treatment goals are not being achieved, despite medication adjustments, 

the physician shall reevaluate the appropriateness of continued treatment. The physician shall monitor 

patient compliance in medication usage, related treatment plans, controlled substance agreements, 

and indications of substance abuse or diversion at a minimum of 3-month intervals. 

(e)The physician shall refer the patient as necessary for additional evaluation and treatment in 

order to achieve treatment objectives. Special attention shall be given to those patients who are at 

risk for misusing their medications and those whose living arrangements pose a risk for medication 

misuse or diversion. The management of pain in patients with a history of substance abuse or with a 

comorbid psychiatric disorder requires extra care, monitoring, and documentation and requires 

consultation with or referral to an addiction medicine specialist or psychiatrist. 

(f)A physician registered under this section must maintain accurate, current, and complete records 

that are accessible and readily available for review and comply with the requirements of this section, 



the applicable practice act, and applicable board rules. The medical records must include, but are not 

limited to: 

1 .The complete medical history and a physical examination, including history of drug abuse or 

dependence. 

2.Diagnostic, therapeutic, and laboratory results. 

3.Evaluations and consultations. 

4.Treatment objectives. 

5.Discussion of risks and benefits. 

6 .Treatments. 

7.Medications, including date, type, dosage, and quantity prescribed. 

8.Instructions and agreements. 

9.Periodic reviews. 

1O.Results of any drug testing. 

11 .A photocopy of the patient's government-issued photo identification. 

12.If a written prescription for a controlled substance is given to the patient, a duplicate of the 

prescription. 

13.The physician's full name presented in a legible manner. 

(g)Patients with signs or symptoms of substance abuse shall be immediately referred to a board- 

certified pain management physician, an addiction medicine specialist, or a mental health addiction 

facility as it pertains to drug abuse or addiction unless the physician is board-certified or board-eligible 

in pain management. Throughout the period of time before receiving the consultant's report, a 

prescribing physician shall clearly and completely document medical justification for continued 

treatment with controlled substances and those steps taken to ensure medically appropriate use of 

controlled substances by the patient. Upon receipt of the consultant's written report, the prescribing 

physician shall incorporate the consultant's recommendations for continuing, modifying, or 

discontinuing controlled substance therapy. The resulting changes in treatment shall be specifically 

documented in the patient's medical record. Evidence or behavioral indications of diversion shall be 

followed by discontinuation of controlled substance therapy, and the patient shall be discharged, and 

all results of testing and actions taken by the physician shall be documented in the patient's medical 

record. 

This subsection does not apply to a board-eligible or board-certified anesthesiologist, physiatrist, 

rheumatologist, or neurologist, or to a board-certified physician who has surgical privileges at a 

hospital or ambulatory surgery center and primarily provides surgical services. This subsection does not 

apply to a board-eligible or board-certified medical specialist who has also completed a fellowship in 

pain medicine approved by the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education or the American 

Osteopathic Association, or who is board eligible or board certified in pain medicine by the American 

Board of Pain Medicine or a board approved by the American Board of Medical Specialties or the 



American Osteopathic Association and performs interventional pain procedures of the type routinely 

billed using surgical codes. This subsection does not apply to a physician who prescribes medically 

necessary controlled substances for a patient during an inpatient stay in a hospital licensed under 

chapter 395. 

History.—s. 3, ch. 2011-141; s. 31, ch. 2012-160. 

456. 5oRepeated medical malpractice.— 

(1 )For purposes of s. 26, Art. X of the State Constitution and ss. 458.331(1 )(t), (4), and (5) and 

459.01 5(1 )(x), (4), and (5): 

(a)"Board" means the Board of Medicine, in the case of a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 

458, or the Board of Osteopathic Medicine, in the case of an osteopathic physician licensed pursuant to 

chapter 459. 

(b)"Final administrative agency decision" means a final order of the licensing board following a 

hearing as provided in s. 120.57(1) or (2) or s. 120.574 finding that the licensee has violated s. 

458.331(1 )(t) or s. 459.01 5(1 )(x). 

(c)"Found to have committed" means the malpractice has been found in a final judgment of a 

court of law, final administrative agency decision, or decision of binding arbitration. 

(d)"Incident" means the wrongful act or occurrence from which the medical malpractice arises, 

regardless of the number of claimants or findings. For purposes of this section: 

1 .A single act of medical malpractice, regardless of the number of claimants, shall count as only 

one incident. 

2.Multiple findings of medical malpractice arising from the same wrongful act or series of wrongful 

acts associated with the treatment of the same patient shall count as only one incident. 

(e)"Level of care, skill, and treatment recognized in general law related to health care licensure" 

means the standard of care specified in s. 766.102. 

(f)"Medical doctor" means a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458 or chapter 459. 

(g)"Medical malpractice" means the failure to practice medicine in accordance with the level of 

care, skill, and treatment recognized in general law related to health care licensure. Only for the 

purpose of finding repeated medical malpractice pursuant to this section, any similar wrongful act, 

neglect, or default committed in another state or country which, if committed in this state, would 

have been considered medical malpractice as defined in this paragraph, shall be considered medical 

malpractice if the standard of care and burden of proof applied in the other state or country equaled 

or exceeded that used in this state. 

(h)"Repeated medical malpractice" means three or more incidents of medical malpractice found 

to have been committed by a medical doctor. Only an incident occurring on or after November 2, 2004, 

shall be considered an incident for purposes of finding repeated medical malpractice under this 

section. 



(2)For purposes of implementing s. 26, Art. X of the State Constitution, the board shall not license 

or continue to license a medical doctor found to have committed repeated medical malpractice, the 

finding of which was based upon clear and convincing evidence. In order to rely on an incident of 

medical malpractice to determine whether a license must be denied or revoked under this section, if 

the facts supporting the finding of the incident of medical malpractice were determined on a standard 

less stringent than clear and convincing evidence, the board shall review the record of the case and 

determine whether the finding would be supported under a standard of clear and convincing evidence. 

Section 456.073 applies. The board may verify on a biennial basis an out-of-state licensee's medical 

malpractice history using federal, state, or other databases. The board may require licensees and 

applicants for licensure to provide a copy of the record of the trial of any medical malpractice 

judgment, which may be required to be in an electronic format, involving an incident that occurred on 

or after November 2, 2004. For purposes of implementing s. 26, Art. X of the State Constitution, the 

90-day requirement for granting or denying a complete allopathic or osteopathic licensure application 

ins. 120.60(1) is extended to 180 days. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2005-266 



2012 Florida Statutes 

Chapter 499 

499.00 1 Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act; short title. 
499.002 Purpose, administration, and enforcement of and exemption from this 
part. 
499.003 Definitions of terms used in this part. 
499.005 Prohibited acts. 
499.0051 Criminal acts. 
499.0054 Advertising and labeling of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; exemptions. 
499.006 Adulterated drug or device. 
499.007 Misbranded drug or device. 
499.008 Adulterated cosmetics. 
499.009 Misbranded cosmetics. 
499.01 Permits. 
499.012 Permit application requirements. 
499.01201 Agency for Health Care Administration review and use of statute and 
rule violation or compliance data. 
499.0121 Storage and handling of prescription drugs; recordkeeping. 
499.01211 Drug Wholesale Distributor Advisory Council. 
499.01212 Pedigree paper. 
499.015 Registration of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; issuance of certificates of 
free sale. 
499.023 New drugs; sale, manufacture, repackaging, distribution. 
499.024 Drug product classification. 
499.025 Drug products in finished, solid, oral dosage form; identification 
requirements. 
499.028 Drug samples or complimentary drugs; starter packs; permits to 
distribute. 
499.029 Cancer Drug Donation Program. 
499.03 Possession of certain drugs without prescriptions unlawful; exemptions and 
exceptions. 
499.032 Phenylalanine; prescription required. 
499.033 Ephedrine; prescription required. 
499.035 Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO); labeling and advertising. 
499.039 Sale, distribution, or transfer of harmful chemical substances; penalties; 
authority for enforcement. 
499.04 Fee authority. 
499.041 Schedule of fees for drug, device, and cosmetic applications and permits, 
product registrations, and free-sale certificates. 
499.05 Rules. 
499.051 Inspections and investigations. 
499.052 Records of interstate shipment. 
499.055 Reports and dissemination of information by department. 
499.057 Expenses and salaries. 
499.06 Embargoing, detaining, or destroying article or processing equipment which 
is in violation of law or rule. 
499.062 Seizure and condemnation of drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 
499.065 Inspections; imminent danger. 
499.066 Penalties; remedies. 
499.0661 Cease and desist orders; removal of certain persons. 



499.067 Denial, suspension, or revocation of permit, certification, or registration. 
499.001 Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act; short title.—Sections 499.001-499.081 
may be cited as the "Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act." 

History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 1, ch. 86-133; ss. 1, 52, ch. 92-69. 
499.Oo2Purpose, administration, and enforcement of and exemption from this 

part. — 

(1)This part is intended to: 
(a)Safeguard the public health and promote the public welfare by protecting the 

public from injury by product use and by merchandising deceit involving drugs, 
devices, and cosmetics. 

(b)Provide uniform legislation to be administered so far as practicable in 
conformity with the provisions of, and regulations issued under the authority of, the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and that portion of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act which expressly prohibits the false advertisement of drugs, devices, 
and cosmetics. 

(c)Promote thereby uniformity of such state and federal laws, and their 
administration and enforcement, throughout the United States. 

(2)The department shall administer and enforce this part to prevent fraud, 
adulteration, misbranding, or false advertising in the preparation, manufacture, 
repackaging, or distribution of drugs, devices, and cosmetics. 

(3)For the purpose of any investigation or proceeding conducted by the 
department under this part, the department may administer oaths, take depositions, 
issue and serve subpoenas, and compel the attendance of witnesses and the 
production of books, papers, documents, or other evidence. The department shall 
exercise this power on its own initiative. Challenges to, and enforcement of, the 
subpoenas and orders shall be handled as provided in s. 120.569. 

(4)Each state attorney, county attorney, or municipal attorney to whom the 
department or its designated agent reports any violation of this part shall cause 
appropriate proceedings to be instituted in the proper courts without delay and to be 
prosecuted in the manner required by law. 

(5)This part does not require the department to report, for the institution of 
proceedings under this part, minor violations of this part when it believes that the 
public interest will be adequately served in the circumstances by a suitable written 
notice or warning. 

(6)Common carriers engaged in interstate commerce are not subject to this part if 
they are engaged in the usual course of business as common carriers. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 2, 3, ch. 86-133; S. 2, ch. 87-50; 
ss. 2, 4, 6, 48, 49, 50, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 240, ch. 96-410; s. 236, ch. 99-8; s. 1, ch. 
2008-207. 
Note.—Subsection (2) former s. 499.004; subsection (3) former s. 499.0053; 
subsection (4) former s. 499.07; subsection (5) former s. 499.071; subsection (6) 
former s. 499.081. 

499.OO3Definitions of terms used in this part—As used in this part, the term: 
(1)"Advertisement" means any representation disseminated in any manner or by 

any means, other than by labeling, for the purpose of inducing, or which is likely to 
induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase of drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 

(2)"Affiliated group" means an affiliated group as defined by s. 1504 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which is composed of chain drug entities, 
including at least 50 retail pharmacies, warehouses, or repackagers, which are 
members of the same affiliated group. The affiliated group must disclose the names 
of all its members to the department. 

(3)"Affiliated party" means: 



(a)A director, officer, trustee, partner, or committee member of a permittee or 
applicant or a subsidiary or service corporation of the permittee or applicant; 

(b)A person who, directly or indirectly, manages, controls, or oversees the 
operation of a permittee or applicant, regardless of whether such person is a partner, 
shareholder, manager, member, officer, director, independent contractor, or 
employee of the permittee or applicant; 

(c)A person who has filed or is required to file a personal information statement 
pursuant to s. 499.012(9) or is required to be identified in an application for a permit 
or to renew a permit pursuant to s. 499.012(8); or 

(d)The five largest natural shareholders that own at least 5 percent of the 
permittee or applicant. 

(4)"Applicant" means a person applying for a permit or certification under this part. 
(5)"Authenticate" means to affirmatively verify upon receipt of a prescription drug 

that each transaction listed on the pedigree paper has occurred. 
(a)A wholesale distributor is not required to open a sealed, medical convenience kit 

to authenticate a pedigree paper for a prescription drug contained within the kit. 
(b)Authentication of a prescription drug included in a sealed, medical convenience 

kit shall be limited to verifying the transaction and pedigree information received. 
(6)"Certificate of free sale" means a document prepared by the department which 

certifies a drug, device, or cosmetic, that is registered with the department, as one 
that can be legally sold in the state. 

(7)"Chain pharmacy warehouse" means a wholesale distributor permitted pursuant 
to s. 499.01 that maintains a physical location for prescription drugs that functions 
solely as a central warehouse to perform intracompany transfers of such drugs to a 

member of its affiliated group. 
(8)"Closed pharmacy" means a pharmacy that is licensed under chapter 465 and 

purchases prescription drugs for use by a limited patient population and not for 
wholesale distribution or sale to the public. The term does not include retail 
pharmacies. 

(9)"Color" includes black, white, and intermediate grays. 
(10)"Color additive" means, with the exception of any material that has been or 

hereafter is exempt under the federal act, a material that: 
(a)Is a dye pigment, or other substance, made by a process of synthesis or similar 

artifice, or extracted, isolated, or otherwise derived, with or without intermediate or 
final change of identity from a vegetable, animal, mineral, or other source; or 

(b)When added or applied to a drug or cosmetic or to the human body, or any part 
thereof, is capable alone, or through reaction with other substances, of imparting 
color thereto. 

(11)"Compressed medical gas" means any liquefied or vaporized gas that is a 

prescription drug, whether it is alone or in combination with other gases. 
(12)"Contraband prescription drug" means any adulterated drug, as defined in s. 

499.006, any counterfeit drug, as defined in this section, and also means any 
prescription drug for which a pedigree paper does not exist, or for which the 
pedigree paper in existence has been forged, counterfeited, falsely created, or 
contains any altered, false, or misrepresented matter. 

(13)"Cosmetic" means an article, with the exception of soap, that is: 
(a)Intended to be rubbed, poured, sprinkled, or sprayed on; introduced into; or 

otherwise applied to the human body or any part thereof for cleansing, beautifying, 
promoting attractiveness, or altering the appearance; or 

(b)Intended for use as a component of any such article. 
(14)"Counterfeit drug," "counterfeit device," or "counterfeit cosmetic" means a 

drug, device, or cosmetic which, or the container, seal, or labeling of which, without 
authorization, bears the trademark, trade name, or other identifying mark, imprint, 



or device, or any likeness thereof, of a drug, device, or cosmetic manufacturer, 
processor, packer, or distributor other than the person that in fact manufactured, 
processed, packed, or distributed that drug, device, or cosmetic and which thereby 
falsely purports or is represented to be the product of, or to have been packed or 
distributed by, that other drug, device, or cosmetic manufacturer, processor, packer, 
or distributor. 

(15)"Department" means the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. 
(16)"Device" means any instrument, apparatus, implement, machine, contrivance, 

implant, in vitro reagent, or other similar or related article, including its components, 
parts, or accessories, which is: 

(a)Recognized in the current edition of the United States Pharmacopoeia and 
National Formulary, or any supplement thereof, 

(b)Intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, therapy, or 
prevention of disease in humans or other animals, or 

(c)Intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of humans or other 
animals, 

and that does not achieve any of its principal intended purposes through chemical action within 
or on the body of humans or other animals and which is not dependent upon being metabolized 
for the achievement of any of its principal intended purposes. 

(17)"Distribute" or "distribution" means to sell; offer to sell; give away; transfer, 
whether by passage of title, physical movement, or both; deliver; or offer to deliver. 
The term does not mean to administer or dispense and does not include the billing 
and invoicing activities that commonly follow a wholesale distribution transaction. 

(18)"Drop shipment" means the sale of a prescription drug from a manufacturer to 
a wholesale distributor, where the wholesale distributor takes title to, but not 
possession of, the prescription drug, and the manufacturer of the prescription drug 
ships the prescription drug directly to a chain pharmacy warehouse or a person 
authorized by law to purchase prescription drugs for the purpose of administering or 
dispensing the drug, as defined in s. 465.003. 

(19)"Drug" means an article that is: 
(a)Recognized in the current edition of the United States Pharmacopoeia and 

National Formulary, official Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or any 
supplement to any of those publications; 

(b)Intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, therapy, or 
prevention of disease in humans or other animals; 

(c)Intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of humans or other 
animals; or 

(d)Intended for use as a component of any article specified in paragraph (a), 
paragraph (b), or paragraph (c), and includes active pharmaceutical ingredients, but 
does not include devices or their nondrug components, parts, or accessories. For 
purposes of this paragraph, an "active pharmaceutical ingredient" includes any 
substance or mixture of substances intended, represented, or labeled for use in drug 
manufacturing that furnishes or is intended to furnish, in a finished dosage form, any 
pharmacological activity or other direct effect in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, 
treatment, therapy, or prevention of disease in humans or other animals, or to affect 
the structure or any function of the body of humans or other animals. 

(20)"Establishment" means a place of business which is at one general physical 
location and may extend to one or more contiguous suites, units, floors, or buildings 
operated and controlled exclusively by entities under common operation and control. 
Where multiple buildings are under common exclusive ownership, operation, and 
control, an intervening thoroughfare does not affect the contiguous nature of the 



buildings. For purposes of permitting, each suite, unit, floor, or building must be 
identified in the most recent permit application. 

(21)"Federal act" means the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. ss. 
301 et seq.; 52 Stat. 1040 et seq. 

(22)"Freight forwarder" means a person who receives prescription drugs which are 
owned by another person and designated by that person for export, and exports 
those prescription drugs. 

(23)"Health care entity" means a closed pharmacy or any person, organization, or 
business entity that provides diagnostic, medical, surgical, or dental treatment or 
care, or chronic or rehabilitative care, but does not include any wholesale distributor 
or retail pharmacy licensed under state law to deal in prescription drugs. However, a 

blood establishment is a health care entity that may engage in the wholesale 
distribution of prescription drugs under s. 499.01(2)(g)1.c. 

(24)"Health care facility" means a health care facility licensed under chapter 395. 
(25)"Hospice" means a corporation licensed under part IV of chapter 400. 
(26)"Hospital" means a facility as defined in s. 395.002 and licensed under chapter 

395. 
(27)"Immediate container" does not include package liners. 
(28)"Label" means a display of written, printed, or graphic matter upon the 

immediate container of any drug, device, or cosmetic. A requirement made by or 
under authority of this part or rules adopted under this part that any word, 
statement, or other information appear on the label is not complied with unless such 
word, statement, or other information also appears on the outside container or 
wrapper, if any, of the retail package of such drug, device, or cosmetic or is easily 
legible through the outside container or wrapper. 

(29)"Labeling" means all labels and other written, printed, or graphic matters: 
(a)Upon a drug, device, or cosmetic, or any of its containers or wrappers; or 
(b)Accompanying or related to such drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(30)"Manufacture" means the preparation, deriving, compounding, propagation, 

processing, producing, or fabrication of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(31)"Manufacturer" means: 
(a)A person who prepares, derives, manufactures, or produces a drug, device, or 

cosmetic; 
(b)The holder or holders of a New Drug Application (NDA), an Abbreviated New 

Drug Application (ANDA), a Biologics License Application (BLA), or a New Animal 
Drug Application (NADA), provided such application has become effective or is 
otherwise approved consistent with s. 499.023; 

(c)A private label distributor for whom the private label distributor's prescription 
drugs are originally manufactured and labeled for the distributor and have not been 
repackaged; 

(d)A person registered under the federal act as a manufacturer of a prescription 
drug, who is described in paragraph (a), paragraph (b), or paragraph (c), who has 
entered into a written agreement with another prescription drug manufacturer that 
authorizes either manufacturer to distribute the prescription drug identified in the 
agreement as the manufacturer of that drug consistent with the federal act and its 
implementing regulations; 

(e)A member of an affiliated group that includes, but is not limited to, persons 
described in paragraph (a), paragraph (b), paragraph (c), or paragraph (d), which 
member distributes prescription drugs, whether or not obtaining title to the drugs, 
only for the manufacturer of the drugs who is also a member of the affiliated group. 
As used in this paragraph, the term "affiliated group" means an affiliated group as 
defined in s. 1504 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The 



manufacturer must disclose the names of all of its affiliated group members to the 
department; or 

(f)A person permitted as a third party logistics provider, only while providing 
warehousing, distribution, or other logistics services on behalf of a person described 
in paragraph (a), paragraph (b), paragraph (c), paragraph (d), or paragraph (e). 

The term does not include a pharmacy that is operating in compliance with pharmacy practice 
standards as defined in chapter 465 and rules adopted under that chapter. 

(32)"Medical convenience kit" means packages or units that contain combination 
products as defined in 21 C.F.R. s. 3.2(e)(2). 

(33)"New drug" means: 
(a)Any drug the composition of which is such that the drug is not generally 

recognized, among experts qualified by scientific training and experience to evaluate 
the safety and effectiveness of drugs, as safe and effective for use under the 
conditions prescribed, recommended, or suggested in the labeling of that drug; or 

(b)Any drug the composition of which is such that the drug, as a result of 
investigations to determine its safety and effectiveness for use under certain 
conditions, has been recognized for use under such conditions, but which drug has 
not, other than in those investigations, been used to a material extent or for a 

material time under such conditions. 
(34)"Normal distribution chain" means a wholesale distribution of a prescription 

drug in which the wholesale distributor or its wholly owned subsidiary purchases and 
receives the specific unit of the prescription drug directly from the manufacturer and 
distributes the prescription drug directly, or through up to two intracompany 
transfers, to a chain pharmacy warehouse or a person authorized by law to purchase 
prescription drugs for the purpose of administering or dispensing the drug, as 
defined in s. 465.003. For purposes of this subsection, the term "intracompany" 
means any transaction or transfer between any parent, division, or subsidiary wholly 
owned by a corporate entity. 

(35)"Nursing home" means a facility licensed under part II of chapter 400. 
(36)"Official compendium" means the current edition of the official United States 

Pharmacopoeia and National Formulary, or any supplement thereto. 
(37)"Pedigree paper" means a document in written or electronic form approved by 

the department which contains information required by s. 499.01212 regarding the 
sale and distribution of any given prescription drug. 

(38)"Permittee" means any person holding a permit issued pursuant to s. 499.012. 
(39)"Person" means any individual, child, joint venture, syndicate, fiduciary, 

partnership, corporation, division of a corporation, firm, trust, business trust, 
company, estate, public or private institution, association, organization, group, city, 
county, city and county, political subdivision of this state, other governmental 
agency within this state, and any representative, agent, or agency of any of the 
foregoing, or any other group or combination of the foregoing. 

(40)"Pharmacist" means a person licensed under chapter 465. 
(41)"Pharmacy" means an entity licensed under chapter 465. 
(42)"Prepackaged drug product" means a drug that originally was in finished 

packaged form sealed by a manufacturer and that is placed in a properly labeled 
container by a pharmacy or practitioner authorized to dispense pursuant to chapter 
465 for the purpose of dispensing in the establishment in which the prepackaging 
occurred. 

(43)"Prescription drug" means a prescription, medicinal, or legend drug, including, 
but not limited to, finished dosage forms or active pharmaceutical ingredients subject 
to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 



or s. 465.003(8), s. 499.007(13), or subsection (11), subsection (46), or subsection 
(53), except that an active pharmaceutical ingredient is a prescription drug only if 
substantially all finished dosage forms in which it may be lawfully dispensed or 
administered in this state are also prescription drugs. 

(44)"Prescription drug label" means any display of written, printed, or graphic 
matter upon the immediate container of any prescription drug prior to its dispensing 
to an individual patient pursuant to a prescription of a practitioner authorized by law 
to prescribe. 

(45)"Prescription label" means any display of written, printed, or graphic matter 
upon the immediate container of any prescription drug dispensed pursuant to a 

prescription of a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe. 
(46)"Prescription medical oxygen" means oxygen USP which is a drug that can only 

be sold on the order or prescription of a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe. 
The label of prescription medical oxygen must comply with current labeling 
requirements for oxygen under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

(47)"Primary wholesale distributor" means any wholesale distributor that: 
(a)Purchased 90 percent or more of the total dollar volume of its purchases of 

prescription drugs directly from manufacturers in the previous year; and 
(b)1.Directly purchased prescription drugs from not fewer than 50 different 

prescription drug manufacturers in the previous year; or 
2.Has, or the affiliated group, as defined in s. 1504 of the Internal Revenue Code, 

of which the wholesale distributor is a member has, not fewer than 250 employees. 
(c)For purposes of this subsection, "directly from manufacturers" means: 
1.Purchases made by the wholesale distributor directly from the manufacturer of 

prescription drugs; and 
2.Transfers from a member of an affiliated group, as defined in s. 1504 of the 

Internal Revenue Code, of which the wholesale distributor is a member, if: 
a.The affiliated group purchases 90 percent or more of the total dollar volume of 

its purchases of prescription drugs from the manufacturer in the previous year; and 
b.The wholesale distributor discloses to the department the names of all members 

of the affiliated group of which the wholesale distributor is a member and the 
affiliated group agrees in writing to provide records on prescription drug purchases 
by the members of the affiliated group not later than 48 hours after the department 
requests access to such records, regardless of the location where the records are 
stored. 

(48)"Proprietary drug," or "OTC drug," means a patent or over-the-counter drug in 
its unbroken, original package, which drug is sold to the public by, or under the 
authority of, the manufacturer or primary distributor thereof, is not misbranded 
under the provisions of this part, and can be purchased without a prescription. 

(49)"Repackage" includes repacking or otherwise changing the container, wrapper, 
or labeling to further the distribution of the drug, device, or cosmetic. 

(50)"Repackager" means a person who repackages. The term excludes pharmacies 
that are operating in compliance with pharmacy practice standards as defined in 
chapter 465 and rules adopted under that chapter. 

(51)"Retail pharmacy" means a community pharmacy licensed under chapter 465 
that purchases prescription drugs at fair market prices and provides prescription 
services to the public. 

(52)"Secondary wholesale distributor" means a wholesale distributor that is not a 

primary wholesale distributor. 
(53)"Veterinary prescription drug" means a prescription drug intended solely for 

veterinary use. The label of the drug must bear the statement, "Caution: Federal law 
restricts this drug to sale by or on the order of a licensed veterinarian." 



(54)"Wholesale distribution" means distribution of prescription drugs to persons 
other than a consumer or patient, but does not include: 

(a)Any of the following activities, which is not a violation of s. 499.005(21) if such 
activity is conducted in accordance with s. 499.01(2)(g): 

1.The purchase or other acquisition by a hospital or other health care entity that is 
a member of a group purchasing organization of a prescription drug for its own use 
from the group purchasing organization or from other hospitals or health care 
entities that are members of that organization. 

2.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug or an offer to sell, purchase, 
or trade a prescription drug by a charitable organization described in s. 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and revised, to a nonprofit affiliate 
of the organization to the extent otherwise permitted by law. 

3.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug or an offer to sell, purchase, 
or trade a prescription drug among hospitals or other health care entities that are 
under common control. For purposes of this subparagraph, "common control" means 
the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a 

person or an organization, whether by ownership of stock, by voting rights, by 
contract, or otherwise. 

4.The sale, purchase, trade, or other transfer of a prescription drug from or for any 
federal, state, or local government agency or any entity eligible to purchase 
prescription drugs at public health services prices pursuant to Pub. L. No. 102-585, 
s. 602 to a contract provider or its subcontractor for eligible patients of the agency or 
entity under the following conditions: 

a.The agency or entity must obtain written authorization for the sale, purchase, 
trade, or other transfer of a prescription drug under this subparagraph from the 
Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation or his or her designee. 

b.The contract provider or subcontractor must be authorized by law to administer 
or dispense prescription drugs. 

c.In the case of a subcontractor, the agency or entity must be a party to and 
execute the subcontract. 

d.The contract provider and subcontractor must maintain and produce immediately 
for inspection all records of movement or transfer of all the prescription drugs 
belonging to the agency or entity, including, but not limited to, the records of receipt 
and disposition of prescription drugs. Each contractor and subcontractor dispensing 
or administering these drugs must maintain and produce records documenting the 
dispensing or administration. Records that are required to be maintained include, but 
are not limited to, a perpetual inventory itemizing drugs received and drugs 
dispensed by prescription number or administered by patient identifier, which must 
be submitted to the agency or entity quarterly. 

e.The contract provider or subcontractor may administer or dispense the 
prescription drugs only to the eligible patients of the agency or entity or must return 
the prescription drugs for or to the agency or entity. The contract provider or 
subcontractor must require proof from each person seeking to fill a prescription or 
obtain treatment that the person is an eligible patient of the agency or entity and 
must, at a minimum, maintain a copy of this proof as part of the records of the 
contractor or subcontractor required under sub-subparagraph d. 

f.m addition to the departmental inspection authority set forth in s. 499.05 1, the 
establishment of the contract provider and subcontractor and all records pertaining 
to prescription drugs subject to this subparagraph shall be subject to inspection by 
the agency or entity. All records relating to prescription drugs of a manufacturer 
under this subparagraph shall be subject to audit by the manufacturer of those 
drugs, without identifying individual patient information. 



(b)Any of the following activities, which is not a violation of s. 499.005(21) if such 
activity is conducted in accordance with rules established by the department: 

1.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug among federal, state, or local 
government health care entities that are under common control and are authorized 
to purchase such prescription drug. 

2.The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug or an offer to sell, purchase, 
or trade a prescription drug for emergency medical reasons. For purposes of this 
subparagraph, the term "emergency medical reasons" includes transfers of 
prescription drugs by a retail pharmacy to another retail pharmacy to alleviate a 

temporary shortage. 
3.The transfer of a prescription drug acquired by a medical director on behalf of a 

licensed emergency medical services provider to that emergency medical services 
provider and its transport vehicles for use in accordance with the provider's license 
under chapter 401. 

4.The revocation of a sale or the return of a prescription drug to the person's 
prescription drug wholesale supplier. 

5.The donation of a prescription drug by a health care entity to a charitable 
organization that has been granted an exemption under s. 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that is authorized to possess prescription 
drugs. 

6.The transfer of a prescription drug by a person authorized to purchase or receive 
prescription drugs to a person licensed or permitted to handle reverse distributions 
or destruction under the laws of the jurisdiction in which the person handling the 
reverse distribution or destruction receives the drug. 

7.The transfer of a prescription drug by a hospital or other health care entity to a 

person licensed under this part to repackage prescription drugs for the purpose of 
repackaging the prescription drug for use by that hospital, or other health care entity 
and other health care entities that are under common control, if ownership of the 
prescription drugs remains with the hospital or other health care entity at all times. 
In addition to the recordkeeping requirements of s. 499.0121(6), the hospital or 
health care entity that transfers prescription drugs pursuant to this subparagraph 
must reconcile all drugs transferred and returned and resolve any discrepancies in a 

timely manner. 
(c)The distribution of prescription drug samples by manufacturers' representatives 

or distributors' representatives conducted in accordance with s. 499.028. 
(d)The sale, purchase, or trade of blood and blood components intended for 

transfusion. As used in this paragraph, the term "blood" means whole blood collected 
from a single donor and processed for transfusion or further manufacturing, and the 
term "blood components" means that part of the blood separated by physical or 
mechanical means. 

(e)The lawful dispensing of a prescription drug in accordance with chapter 465. 
(f)The sale, purchase, or trade of a prescription drug between pharmacies as a 

result of a sale, transfer, merger, or consolidation of all or part of the business of the 
pharmacies from or with another pharmacy, whether accomplished as a purchase 
and sale of stock or of business assets. 

(55)"Wholesale distributor" means any person engaged in wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs in or into this state, including, but not limited to, manufacturers; 
repackagers; own-label distributors; jobbers; private-label distributors; brokers; 
warehouses, including manufacturers' and distributors' warehouses, chain drug 
warehouses, and wholesale drug warehouses; independent wholesale drug traders; 
exporters; retail pharmacies; and the agents thereof that conduct wholesale 
distributions. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 105, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; S. 1, ch. 84-115; 
s. 1, ch. 87-57; s. 3, ch. 88-159; ss. 3, 15, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 584, ch. 97-103; s. 31, 
ch. 98-151; s. 235, ch. 99-8; ss. 124, 172, ch. 99-397; s. 34, ch. 2000-242; s. 10, 
ch. 2000-326; s. 38, ch. 2002-400; ss. 3, 13, 14, 25, ch. 2003-155; s. 1, ch. 2004- 
328; ss. 1, 2, ch. 2005-248; ss. 1, 3, ch. 2006-310; s. 122, ch. 2007-5; s. 20, ch. 
2007-6; s. 104, ch. 2008-6; s. 2, ch. 2008-207; s. 60, ch. 2009-21; s. 1, ch. 2009- 
221; s. 22, ch. 2010-161; s. 2, ch. 2012-37; s. 33, ch. 2012-61; s. 3, ch. 2012-143; 
s. 122, ch. 2012-184. 
Note.—Subsection (24) former s. 499.029(3)(f); subsection (25) former s. 
499.029(3)(h); subsection (26) former s. 499.029(3)(i); subsection (34) former s. 
499.029(3)(j); subsection (37) former s. 499.0661(1); subsection (39) former s. 
499.029(3)(l); subsection (40) former s. 499.029(3)(m); subsection (46) intro., 
paragraphs (a), (b) former s. 499.012(1)(d); paragraph (46)(c) former s. 
499.012(1)(e); subsection (50) former s. 499.012(1)(c); subsection (51) former s. 
499.012(1)(f); subsection (53) former s. 499.012(1)(a); subsection (54) former s. 
499.012(1)(b). 

499.O05Prohibited acts.—It is unlawful for a person to perform or cause the 
performance of any of the following acts in this state: 

(1)The manufacture, repackaging, sale, delivery, or holding or offering for sale of 
any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded or has otherwise 
been rendered unfit for human or animal use. 

(2)The adulteration or misbranding of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(3)The receipt of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded, 

and the delivery or proffered delivery of such drug, device, or cosmetic, for pay or 
otherwise. 

(4)The sale, distribution, purchase, trade, holding, or offering of any drug, device, 
or cosmetic in violation of this part. 

(5)The dissemination of any false or misleading advertisement of a drug, device, or 
cosmetic. 

(6)The refusal or constructive refusal: 
(a)To allow the department to enter or inspect an establishment in which drugs, 

devices, or cosmetics are manufactured, processed, repackaged, sold, brokered, or 
held; 

(b)To allow inspection of any record of that establishment; 
(c)To allow the department to enter and inspect any vehicle that is being used to 

transport drugs, devices, or cosmetics; or 
(d)To allow the department to take samples of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 
(7)The purchase or sale of prescription drugs for wholesale distribution in 

exchange for currency, as defined in s. 560.103. 
(8)Committing any act that causes a drug, device, or cosmetic to be a counterfeit 

drug, device, or cosmetic; or selling, dispensing, or holding for sale a counterfeit 
drug, device, or cosmetic. 

(9)The alteration, mutilation, destruction, obliteration, or removal of the whole or 
any part of the labeling of a drug, device, or cosmetic, or the doing of any other act 
with respect to a drug, device, or cosmetic, if the act is done while the drug, device, 
or cosmetic is held for sale and the act results in the drug, device, or cosmetic being 
misbranded. 

(10)Forging; counterfeiting; simulating; falsely representing any drug, device, or 
cosmetic; or, without the authority of the manufacturer, using any mark, stamp, tag, 
label, or other identification device authorized or required by rules adopted under 
this part. 



(11)The use, on the labeling of any drug or in any advertisement relating to such 
drug, of any representation or suggestion that an application of the drug is effective 
when it is not or that the drug complies with this part when it does not. 

(12)The possession of any drug in violation of this part. 
(13)The sale, delivery, holding, or offering for sale of any self-testing kits designed 

to tell persons their status concerning human immunodeficiency virus or acquired 
immune deficiency syndrome or related disorders or conditions. This prohibition shall 
not apply to home access HIV test kits approved for distribution and sale by the 
United States Food and Drug Administration. 

(14)The purchase or receipt of a prescription drug from a person that is not 
authorized under this chapter to distribute prescription drugs to that purchaser or 
recipient. 

(15)The sale or transfer of a prescription drug to a person that is not authorized 
under the law of the jurisdiction in which the person receives the drug to purchase or 
possess prescription drugs from the person selling or transferring the prescription 
drug. 

(16)The purchase or receipt of a compressed medical gas from a person that is not 
authorized under this chapter to distribute compressed medical gases. 

(17)The sale, purchase, or trade, or the offer to sell, purchase, or trade, a drug 
sample as defined in s. 499.028; the distribution of a drug sample in violation of s. 
499.028; or the failure to otherwise comply with s. 499.028. 

(18)Failure to maintain records as required by this part and rules adopted under 
this part. 

(19)Providing the department with false or fraudulent records, or making false or 
fraudulent statements, regarding any matter within the provisions of this part. 

(20)The importation of a prescription drug except as provided by s. 801(d) of the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

(21)The wholesale distribution of any prescription drug that was: 
(a)Purchased by a public or private hospital or other health care entity; or 
(b)Donated or supplied at a reduced price to a charitable organization, 

unless the wholesale distribution of the prescription drug is authorized in s. 499.01 (2)(g)1 .c. 

(22)Failure to obtain a permit or registration, or operating without a valid permit 
when a permit or registration is required by this part for that activity. 

(23)Obtaining or attempting to obtain a prescription drug or device by fraud, 
deceit, misrepresentation or subterfuge, or engaging in misrepresentation or fraud in 
the distribution of a drug or device. 

(24)The distribution of a prescription device to the patient or ultimate consumer 
without a prescription or order from a practitioner licensed by law to use or prescribe 
the device. 

(25)Charging a dispensing fee for dispensing, administering, or distributing a 

prescription drug sample. 
(26)Removing a pharmacy's dispensing label from a dispensed prescription drug 

with the intent to further distribute the prescription drug. 
(27)Distributing a prescription drug that was previously dispensed by a licensed 

pharmacy, unless such distribution was authorized in chapter 465 or the rules 
adopted under chapter 465. 

(28)Failure to acquire or deliver a pedigree paper as required under this part. 
(29)The receipt of a prescription drug pursuant to a wholesale distribution without 

having previously received or simultaneously receiving a pedigree paper that was 
attested to as accurate and complete by the wholesale distributor as required under 
this part. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 106, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; S. 24, ch. 88-380; 
ss. 5, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 3, ch. 95-308; s. 585, ch. 97-103; s. 29, ch. 98-151; s. 37, 
ch. 99-397; s. 35, ch. 2000-242; s. 17, ch. 2001-63; s. 32, ch. 2001-89; s. 4, ch. 
2003-155; s. 4, ch. 2006-310; s. 21, ch. 2007-6; s. 48, ch. 2008-177; s. 3, ch. 
2008-207; s. 3, ch. 2012-37. 

499.OO5lCriminal acts.— 
(1)FAILURE TO MAINTAIN OR DELIVER PEDIGREE PAPERS.— 
(a)A person, other than a manufacturer, engaged in the wholesale distribution of 

prescription drugs who fails to deliver to another person complete and accurate 
pedigree papers concerning a prescription drug or contraband prescription drug prior 
to, or simultaneous with, the transfer of the prescription drug or contraband 
prescription drug to another person commits a felony of the third degree, punishable 
as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)A person engaged in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs who fails to 
acquire complete and accurate pedigree papers concerning a prescription drug or 
contraband prescription drug prior to, or simultaneous with, the receipt of the 
prescription drug or contraband prescription drug from another person commits a 

felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. 

(c)Any person who knowingly destroys, alters, conceals, or fails to maintain 
complete and accurate pedigree papers concerning any prescription drug or 
contraband prescription drug in his or her possession commits a felony of the third 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)FAILURE TO AUTHENTICATE PEDIGREE PAPERS.—Effective July 1, 2006: 
(a)A person engaged in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs who is in 

possession of pedigree papers concerning prescription drugs or contraband 
prescription drugs and who fails to authenticate the matters contained in the 
pedigree papers and who nevertheless attempts to further distribute prescription 
drugs or contraband prescription drugs commits a felony of the third degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(b)A person in possession of pedigree papers concerning prescription drugs or 
contraband prescription drugs who falsely swears or certifies that he or she has 
authenticated the matters contained in the pedigree papers commits a felony of the 
third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)KNOWING FORGERY OF PEDIGREE PAPERS.—A person who knowingly forges, 
counterfeits, or falsely creates any pedigree paper; who falsely represents any 
factual matter contained on any pedigree paper; or who knowingly omits to record 
material information required to be recorded in a pedigree paper, commits a felony 
of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. 

(4)KNOWING PURCHASE OR RECEIPT OF PRESCRIPTION DRUG FROM 
UNAUTHORIZED PERSON.—A person who knowingly purchases or receives from a 

person not authorized to distribute prescription drugs under this chapter a 

prescription drug in a wholesale distribution transaction commits a felony of the 
second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(5)KNOWING SALE OR TRANSFER OF PRESCRIPTION DRUG TO UNAUTHORIZED 
PERSON.—A person who knowingly sells or transfers to a person not authorized to 
purchase or possess prescription drugs, under the law of the jurisdiction in which the 
person receives the drug, a prescription drug in a wholesale distribution transaction 
commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 
775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(6)KNOWING SALE OR DELIVERY, OR POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO SELL, 
CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.—A person who is knowingly in actual or 



constructive possession of any amount of contraband prescription drugs, who 
knowingly sells or delivers, or who possesses with intent to sell or deliver any 
amount of contraband prescription drugs, commits a felony of the second degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(7)KNOWING TRAFFICKING IN CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.—A person 
who knowingly sells, purchases, manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, or 
who is knowingly in actual or constructive possession of any amount of contraband 
prescription drugs valued at $25,000 or more commits a felony of the first degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(a)Upon conviction, each defendant shall be ordered to pay a mandatory fine 
according to the following schedule: 

1.If the value of contraband prescription drugs involved is $25,000 or more, but 
less than $100,000, the defendant shall pay a mandatory fine of $25,000. If the 
defendant is a corporation or other person that is not a natural person, it shall pay a 

mandatory fine of $75,000. 
2.If the value of contraband prescription drugs involved is $100,000 or more, but 

less than $250,000, the defendant shall pay a mandatory fine of $100,000. If the 
defendant is a corporation or other person that is not a natural person, it shall pay a 

mandatory fine of $300,000. 
3.If the value of contraband prescription drugs involved is $250,000 or more, the 

defendant shall pay a mandatory fine of $200,000. If the defendant is a corporation 
or other person that is not a natural person, it shall pay a mandatory fine of 
$600,000. 

(b)As used in this subsection, the term "value" means the market value of the 
property at the time and place of the offense or, if such cannot be satisfactorily 
ascertained, the cost of replacement of the property within a reasonable time after 
the offense. Amounts of value of separate contraband prescription drugs involved in 
distinct transactions for the distribution of the contraband prescription drugs 
committed pursuant to one scheme or course of conduct, whether involving the 
same person or several persons, may be aggregated in determining the punishment 
of the offense. 

(8)KNOWING FORGERY OF PRESCRIPTION OR PRESCRIPTION DRUG LABELS.—A 
person who knowingly forges, counterfeits, or falsely creates any prescription label 
or prescription drug label, or who falsely represents any factual matter contained on 
any prescription label or prescription drug label, commits a felony of the first degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(9)KNOWING SALE OR PURCHASE OF CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS 
RESULTING IN GREAT BODILY HARM.—A person who knowingly sells, purchases, 
manufactures, delivers, or brings into this state, or who is knowingly in actual or 
constructive possession of any amount of contraband prescription drugs, and whose 
acts in violation of this subsection result in great bodily harm to a person, commits a 

felony of the first degree, as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 
(10)KNOWING SALE OR PURCHASE OF CONTRABAND PRESCRIPTION DRUGS 

RESULTING IN DEATH.—A person who knowingly manufactures, sells, purchases, 
delivers, or brings into this state, or who is knowingly in actual or constructive 
possession of any amount of contraband prescription drugs, and whose acts in 
violation of this subsection result in the death of a person, commits a felony of the 
first degree, punishable by a term of years not exceeding life, as provided in s. 
775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(11)VIOLATIONS OF 5. 499.005 RELATED TO DEVICES AND COSMETICS; 
DISSEMINATION OF FALSE ADVERTISEMENT.— 

(a)Any person who violates any of the provisions of s. 499.005 with respect to a 

device or cosmetic commits a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as 





(b)The sale, purchase, or trade, or the offer to sell, purchase, or trade, a drug 
sample as defined in s. 499.028; the distribution of a drug sample in violation of s. 
499.028; or the failure to otherwise comply with s. 499.028. 

(c)Providing the department with false or fraudulent records, or making false or 
fraudulent statements, regarding any matter within the provisions of this part related 
to a drug. 

(d)The failure to receive, maintain, or provide invoices and shipping documents, 
other than pedigree papers, if applicable, related to the distribution of a prescription 
drug. 

(e)The importation of a prescription drug for wholesale distribution, except as 
provided by s. 801(d) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

(f)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug that was: 
1.Purchased by a public or private hospital or other health care entity; or 
2.Donated or supplied at a reduced price to a charitable organization. 
(g)The failure to obtain a permit as a prescription drug wholesale distributor when 

a permit is required by this part for that activity. 
(h)Knowingly possessing any adulterated or misbranded prescription drug outside 

of a designated quarantine area. 
(i)The purchase or sale of a prescription drug for wholesale distribution in 

exchange for currency, as defined in s. 560.103. 
(14)OTHER VIOLATIONS.—Any person who violates any of the following provisions 

commits a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 
775.083, or s. 775.084, or as otherwise provided in this part: 

(a)Knowingly manufacturing, repackaging, selling, delivering, or holding or offering 
for sale any drug that is adulterated or misbranded or has otherwise been rendered 
unfit for human or animal use. 

(b)Knowingly adulterating a drug that is intended for further distribution. 
(c)Knowingly receiving a drug that is adulterated and delivering or proffering 

delivery of such drug for pay or otherwise. 
(d)Committing any act that causes a drug to be a counterfeit drug, or selling, 

dispensing, or knowingly holding for sale a counterfeit drug. 
(e)Forging, counterfeiting, simulating, or falsely representing any drug, or, without 

the authority of the manufacturer, using any mark, stamp, tag, label, or other 
identification device authorized or required by rules adopted under this part. 

(f)Knowingly obtaining or attempting to obtain a prescription drug for wholesale 
distribution by fraud, deceit, misrepresentation, or subterfuge, or engaging in 
misrepresentation or fraud in the distribution of a drug. 

(g)Removing a pharmacy's dispensing label from a dispensed prescription drug 
with the intent to further distribute the prescription drug. 

(h)Knowingly distributing a prescription drug that was previously dispensed by a 

licensed pharmacy, unless such distribution was authorized in chapter 465 or the 
rules adopted under chapter 465. 

(15)FALSE ADVERTISEMENT.—A publisher, radio broadcast licensee, or agency or 
medium for the dissemination of an advertisement, except the manufacturer, 
repackager, wholesale distributor, or seller of the article to which a false 
advertisement relates, is not liable under subsection (12), subsection (13), or 
subsection (14) by reason of the dissemination by him or her of such false 
advertisement, unless he or she has refused, on the request of the department, to 
furnish to the department the name and post office address of the manufacturer, 
repackager, wholesale distributor, seller, or advertising agency that asked him or her 
to disseminate such advertisement. 



(16)FALSE REPORT.—Any person who submits a report required by 5. 

499.0121(14) knowing that such report contains a false statement commits a felony 
of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(17)CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE DISTRIBUTION.—Any person who engages in the 
wholesale distribution of prescription drugs and who knowingly distributes controlled 
substances in violation of s. 499.0121(14) commits a felony of the third degree, 
punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. In addition to any 
other fine that may be imposed, a person convicted of such a violation may be 
sentenced to pay a fine that does not exceed three times the gross monetary value 
gained from such violation, plus court costs and the reasonable costs of investigation 
and prosecution. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 118, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 47, 52, ch. 92- 
69; s. 595, ch. 97-103; s. 40, ch. 99-397; ss. 5, 6, 7, 8, 27, 28, ch. 2003-155; s. 
16, ch. 2007-6; s. 49, ch. 2008-177; s. 4, ch. 2008-207; s. 16, ch. 2011-141. 
Note.—Subsection (7) former s. 499.0052; subsection (9) former s. 499.00535; 
subsection (10) former s. 499.00545; subsection (11) former s. 499.069; 
subsections (12)-(15) former s. 499.0691. 

499.Oos4Advertising and labeling of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; exemptions.— 
(1)It is a violation of the Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act to perform or cause the 

performance of any of the following acts: 
(a)The dissemination of any false advertisement of any drug, device, or cosmetic. 

An advertisement is false if it is false or misleading in any way. 
(b)The distribution in commerce of any drug, device, or cosmetic, if its labeling or 

advertising is in violation of this part. 
(c)The manufacturing, repackaging, packaging, selling, delivery, holding, or 

offering for sale of any drug, device, or cosmetic for which the advertising or labeling 
is false or misleading. 

(d)The advertising of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or 
misbranded. 

(e)The receiving in commerce of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is falsely 
advertised or labeled or the delivering or proffering for delivery of any such drug, 
device, or cosmetic. 

(f)The advertising or labeling of any product containing ephedrine, a salt of 
ephedrine, an isomer of ephedrine, or a salt of an isomer of ephedrine, for the 
indication of stimulation, mental alertness, weight loss, appetite control, energy, or 
other indications not approved by the pertinent United States Food and Drug 
Administration Over-the-Counter Final or Tentative Final Monograph or approved 
new drug application under the federal act. In determining compliance with this 
requirement, the department may consider the following factors: 

1.The packaging of the product. 
2.The name and labeling of the product. 
3.The manner of distribution, advertising, and promotion of the product, including 

verbal representations at the point of sale. 
4.The duration, scope, and significance of abuse of the particular product. 
(g)The advertising of any drug or device represented to have any effect in any of 

the following conditions, disorders, diseases, or processes: 
1.Blood disorders. 
2.Bone or joint diseases. 
3.Kidney diseases or disorders. 
4.Cancer. 
5.Diabetes. 
6.Gall bladder diseases or disorders. 
7.Heart and vascular diseases. 



8.High blood pressure. 
9.Diseases or disorders of the ear or auditory apparatus, including hearing loss or 

deafness. 
10.Mental disease or mental retardation. 
11.Paralysis. 
12.Prostate gland disorders. 
13.Conditions of the scalp affecting hair loss. 
14. Baldness. 
15.Endocrine disorders. 
16.Sexual impotence. 
17 .Tu m 0 rs. 
18.Venereal diseases. 
19.Varicose ulcers. 
20.Breast enlargement. 
21.Purifying blood. 
22.Metabolic disorders. 
23.Immune system disorders or conditions affecting the immune system. 
24. Extension of life expectancy. 
25.Stress and tension. 
26.Brain stimulation or performance. 
27.The body's natural defense mechanisms. 
28.Blood flow. 
29. Depression. 
30.Human immunodeficiency virus or acquired immune deficiency syndrome or 

related disorders or conditions. 
(h)The representation or suggestion in labeling or advertising that an article is 

approved under this part, when such is not the case. 
(2)In determining whether an advertisement is false or misleading, the department 

shall review the representations made or suggested by statement, word, design, 
device, sound, or any combination thereof within the advertisement and the extent 
to which the advertisement fails to reveal material facts with respect to 
consequences that can result from the use of the drug, device, or cosmetic to which 
the advertisement relates under the conditions of use prescribed in the labeling or 
advertisement. 

(3)(a)An advertisement that is not prohibited under paragraph (1)(a) is not 
prohibited under paragraph (1)(g) if it is disseminated: 

1.To the public solely to advertise the product for those indications that are safe 
and effective indications and the product is safe and effective for self-medication, as 
established by the United States Food and Drug Administration; or 

2.Only to members of the medical, dental, pharmaceutical, or veterinary 
professions or appears only in the scientific periodicals of these professions. 

(b)Compliance with this part and the rules adopted under this part creates no legal 
presumption that a drug or device is safe or effective. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 1, 2, 4, ch. 86-271; s. 5, ch. 88- 
172; s. 25, ch. 88-380; ss. 7, 8, 9, 52, ch. 92-69; ss. 2, 3, ch. 95-415; s. 36, ch. 
2000-242; s. 5, ch. 2008-207. 
Note.—Subsection (2) former s. 499.0055; subsection (3) former s. 499.0057. 

499.Oo6Adulterated drug or device.—A drug or device is adulterated: 
(1)If it consists in whole or in part of any filthy, putrid, or decomposed substance; 
(2)If it has been produced, prepared, packed, or held under conditions whereby it 

could have been contaminated with filth or rendered injurious to health; 
(3)If it is a drug and the methods used in, or the facilities or controls used for, its 

manufacture, processing, packing, or holding do not conform to, or are not operated 



or administered in conformity with, current good manufacturing practices to assure 
that the drug meets the requirements of this part and that the drug has the identity 
and strength, and meets the standard of quality and purity, which it purports or is 
represented to possess; 

(4)If it is a drug and its container is composed, in whole or in part, of any 
poisonous or deleterious substance which could render the contents injurious to 
health; 

(5)If it is a drug and it bears or contains, for the purpose of coloring only, a color 
additive that is unsafe within the meaning of the federal act; or, if it is a color 
additive, the intended use of which in or on drugs is for the purpose of coloring only, 
and it is unsafe within the meaning of the federal act; 

(6)If it purports to be, or is represented as, a drug the name of which is recognized 
in the official compendium, and its strength differs from, or its quality or purity falls 
below, the standard set forth in such compendium. The determination as to strength, 
quality, or purity must be made in accordance with the tests or methods of assay set 
forth in such compendium, or, when such tests or methods of assay are absent or 
inadequate, in accordance with those tests or methods of assay prescribed under 
authority of the federal act. A drug defined in the official compendium is not 
adulterated under this subsection merely because it differs from the standard of 
strength, quality, or purity set forth for that drug in such compendium if its 
difference in strength, quality, or purity from such standard is plainly stated on its 
label; 

(7)If it is not subject to subsection (6) and its strength differs from, or its purity or 
quality falls below the standard of, that which it purports or is represented to 
possess; 

(8)If it is a drug: 
(a)With which any substance has been mixed or packed so as to reduce the quality 

or strength of the drug; or 
(b)For which any substance has been substituted wholly or in part; 
(9)If it is a drug or device for which the expiration date has passed; 
(lO)If it is a prescription drug for which the required pedigree paper is nonexistent, 

fraudulent, or incomplete under the requirements of this part or applicable rules, or 
that has been purchased, held, sold, or distributed at any time by a person not 
authorized under federal or state law to do so; or 

(ll)If it is a prescription drug subject to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of 
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act which has been returned by a veterinarian 
to a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 10, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 9, ch. 2003- 
155; s. 1, ch. 2006-92; s. 6, ch. 2008-207. 

499.Oo7Misbranded drug or device.—A drug or device is misbranded: 
(l)If its labeling is in any way false or misleading. 
(2)If in package form, it does not bear a label containing: 
(a)The name and place of business of the manufacturer, repackager, or distributor 

of the finished dosage form of the drug. For the purpose of this paragraph, the 
finished dosage form of a prescription drug is that form of the drug which is, or is 
intended to be, dispensed or administered to the patient and requires no further 
manufacturing or processing other than packaging, reconstitution, and labeling; and 

(b)An accurate statement of the quantity of the contents in terms of weight, 
measure, or numerical count. However, under this section, reasonable variations are 
permitted, and the department shall establish by rule exemptions for small 
packages. 

(3)If it is an active pharmaceutical ingredient in bulk form and does not bear a 

label containing: 



and the 
and 

the in 
or 

or or 
the or labeling is not prominently placed thereon with such 

conspicuousness as compared with other words, statements, designs, or devices in 
the labeling, and in such terms, as to render the word, statement, or other 
information likely to be read and understood under customary conditions of purchase 
and use. 

it is a is a an 
label not 

of the any; and 
it is or or 

of 
labeling not 

and 
in in which 

be to or its use 
or or methods or duration of administration or 

application, in such manner and form as are necessary for the protection of users. 
(7)If it purports to be a drug the name of which is recognized in the official 

compendium and it is not packaged and labeled as prescribed therein. However, the 
method of packaging may be modified with the consent of the department. 

(8)If it has been found by the department to be a drug liable to deterioration and it 
is not packaged in such form and manner, and its label bears a statement of such 
precautions, as the department by rule requires as necessary to protect the public 
health. Such rule may not be established for any drug recognized in an official 
compendium until the department has informed the appropriate body charged with 
the revision of such compendium of the need for such packaging or labeling 
requirements and that body has failed within a reasonable time to prescribe such 
requirements. 

(9)If it is: 
(a)A drug and its container or finished dosage form is so made, formed, or filled as 

to be misleading; 
(b)An imitation of another drug; or 
(c)Offered for sale under the name of another drug. 
(1O)If it is dangerous to health when used in the dosage or with the frequency or 

duration prescribed, recommended, or suggested in the labeling of the drug. 
(11)If it is, purports to be, or is represented as a drug composed wholly or partly 

of insulin and it is not from a batch with respect to which a certificate has been 
issued pursuant to s. 506 of the federal act, which certificate is in effect with respect 
to the drug. 

(12)If it is, purports to be, or is represented as a drug composed wholly or partly 
of any kind of antibiotic requiring certification under the federal act and it is not from 
a batch with respect to which a certificate has been issued pursuant to s. 507 of the 
federal act, which certificate is in effect with respect to the drug. However, this 
subsection does not apply to any drug or class of drugs exempted by regulations 
adopted under s. 507(c) or (d) of the federal act. 

(13)If it is a drug intended for use by humans which is a habit-forming drug or 
which, because of its toxicity or other potentiality for harmful effect, or the method 
of its use, or the collateral measures necessary to its use, is not safe for use except 
under the supervision of a practitioner licensed by law to administer such drugs, or 



which is limited by an effective application under s. 505 of the federal act to use 
under the professional supervision of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such 
drug, if it is not dispensed only: 

(a)Upon the written prescription of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such 
drug; 

(b)Upon an oral prescription of such practitioner, which is reduced promptly to 
writing and filled by the pharmacist; or 

(c)By refilling any such written or oral prescription, if such refilling is authorized by 
the prescriber in the original prescription or by oral order which is reduced promptly 
to writing and filled by the pharmacist. 

This subsection does not relieve any person from any requirement prescribed by law with 
respect to controLLed substances as defined in the appLicabLe federal and state laws. 

(14)If it is a drug that is subject to paragraph (13)(a), and if, at any time before it 
is dispensed, its label does not bear the statement: 

(a)"Caution: Federal Law Prohibits Dispensing Without Prescription"; 
(b)"Rx Only"; 
(c)The prescription symbol followed by the word "Only"; or 
(d)"Caution: State Law Prohibits Dispensing Without Prescription." 
(15)If it is a drug that is not subject to paragraph (13)(a), if at any time before it 

is dispensed its label bears the statement of caution required in subsection (14). 
(16)If it is a color additive, the intended use of which in or on drugs is for the 

purpose of coloring only and its packaging and labeling are not in conformity with the 
packaging and labeling requirements that apply to such color additive and are 
prescribed under the federal act. 

(17)A drug dispensed by filling or refilling a written or oral prescription of a 

practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such drug is exempt from the requirements 
of this section, except subsections (1), (9), (11), and (12) and the packaging 
requirements of subsections (7) and (8), if the drug bears a label that contains the 
name and address of the dispenser or seller, the prescription number and the date 
the prescription was written or filled, the name of the prescriber and the name of the 
patient, and the directions for use and cautionary statements. This exemption does 
not apply to any drug dispensed in the course of the conduct of a business of 
dispensing drugs pursuant to diagnosis by mail or to any drug dispensed in violation 
of subsection (13). The department may, by rule, exempt drugs subject to s. 
499.062 from subsection (13) if compliance with that subsection is not necessary to 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 107, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 2, ch. 84-115; 
ss. 11, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 586, ch. 97-103; s. 38, ch. 99-397; s. 10, ch. 2003-155; s. 
84, ch. 2004-5; s. 7, ch. 2008-207. 

499.Oo8Adulterated cosmetics.—A cosmetic is adulterated: 
(1)If it bears or contains any poisonous or deleterious substance that is injurious to 

users under the conditions of use prescribed in the labeling or advertisement thereof 
or under such conditions of use as are customary or usual; however, this subsection 
does not apply to coal-tar hair dye: 

(a)The label of which bears the following legend conspicuously displayed thereon: 
"Caution: This product contains ingredients which may cause skin irritation on certain 
individuals, and a preliminary test according to accompanying directions should first 
be made. This product must not be used for dyeing the eyelashes or eyebrows; to do 
so may cause blindness"; and 

(b)The labeling of which bears adequate directions for such preliminary testing. 
(2)If it consists in whole or in part of any filthy, putrid, or decomposed substance. 





(r)A cosmetic manufacturer; 
(s)A third party logistics provider; or 
(t)A health care clinic establishment. 
(2)The following permits are established: 
(a)Prescription drug manufacturer permit.—A prescription drug manufacturer 

permit is required for any person that is a manufacturer of a prescription drug and 
that manufactures or distributes such prescription drugs in this state. 

l.A person that operates an establishment permitted as a prescription drug 
manufacturer may engage in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs 
manufactured at that establishment and must comply with all of the provisions of 
this part, except s. 499.01212, and the rules adopted under this part, except s. 
499.01212, which apply to a wholesale distributor. 

2.A prescription drug manufacturer must comply with all appropriate state and 
federal good manufacturing practices. 

3.A blood establishment, as defined in s. 381.06014, operating in a manner 
consistent with the provisions of 21 C.F.R. parts 211 and 600-640, and 
manufacturing only the prescription drugs described in s. 499.003(54)(d) is not 
required to be permitted as a prescription drug manufacturer under this paragraph or 
to register products under s. 499.015. 

(b)Prescription drug repackager permit.—A prescription drug repackager permit is 
required for any person that repackages a prescription drug in this state. 

l.A person that operates an establishment permitted as a prescription drug 
repackager may engage in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs repackaged at 
that establishment and must comply with all the provisions of this part and the rules 
adopted under this part that apply to a wholesale distributor. 

2.A prescription drug repackager must comply with all appropriate state and 
federal good manufacturing practices. 

(c)Nonresident prescription drug manufacturer permit.—A nonresident prescription 
drug manufacturer permit is required for any person that is a manufacturer of 
prescription drugs, unless permitted as a third party logistics provider, located 
outside of this state or outside the United States and that engages in the wholesale 
distribution in this state of such prescription drugs. Each such manufacturer must be 
permitted by the department and comply with all of the provisions required of a 

wholesale distributor under this part, except s. 499.01212. 
l.A person that distributes prescription drugs for which the person is not the 

manufacturer must also obtain an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor 
permit or third party logistics provider permit pursuant to this section to engage in 
the wholesale distribution of such prescription drugs. This subparagraph does not 
apply to a manufacturer as defined in s. 499.003(31)(e). 

2.Any such person must comply with the licensing or permitting requirements of 
the jurisdiction in which the establishment is located and the federal act, and any 
product wholesaled into this state must comply with this part. If a person intends to 
import prescription drugs from a foreign country into this state, the nonresident 
prescription drug manufacturer must provide to the department a list identifying 
each prescription drug it intends to import and document approval by the United 
States Food and Drug Administration for such importation. 

(d)Prescription drug wholesale distributor permit.—A prescription drug wholesale 
distributor is a wholesale distributor that may engage in the wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs. A prescription drug wholesale distributor that applies to the 
department for a new permit or the renewal of a permit must submit a bond of 
$100,000, or other equivalent means of security acceptable to the department, such 
as an irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit in a trust account or financial 
institution, payable to the Professional Regulation Trust Fund. The purpose of the 



bond is to secure payment of any administrative penalties imposed by the 
department and any fees and costs incurred by the department regarding that 
permit which are authorized under state law and which the permittee fails to pay 30 
days after the fine or costs become final. The department may make a claim against 
such bond or security until 1 year after the permittee's license ceases to be valid or 
until 60 days after any administrative or legal proceeding authorized in this part 
which involves the permittee is concluded, including any appeal, whichever occurs 
later. The department may adopt rules for issuing a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor-broker permit to a person who engages in the wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs and does not take physical possession of any prescription drugs. 

(e)Out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit.—An out-of-state 
prescription drug wholesale distributor is a wholesale distributor located outside this 
state which engages in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs into this state 
and which must be permitted by the department and comply with all the provisions 
required of a wholesale distributor under this part. An out-of-state prescription drug 
wholesale distributor that applies to the department for a new permit or the renewal 
of a permit must submit a bond of $100,000, or other equivalent means of security 
acceptable to the department, such as an irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit in a 

trust account or financial institution, payable to the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. The purpose of the bond is to secure payment of any administrative penalties 
imposed by the department and any fees and costs incurred by the department 
regarding that permit which are authorized under state law and which the permittee 
fails to pay 30 days after the fine or costs become final. The department may make a 

claim against such bond or security until 1 year after the permittee's license ceases 
to be valid or until 60 days after any administrative or legal proceeding authorized in 
this part which involves the permittee is concluded, including any appeal, whichever 
occurs later. The out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor must maintain 
at all times a license or permit to engage in the wholesale distribution of prescription 
drugs in compliance with laws of the state in which it is a resident. 

(f)Retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit.—A retail pharmacy drug 
wholesale distributor is a retail pharmacy engaged in wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs within this state under the following conditions: 

1.The pharmacy must obtain a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit 
pursuant to this part and the rules adopted under this part. 

2.The wholesale distribution activity does not exceed 30 percent of the total annual 
purchases of prescription drugs. If the wholesale distribution activity exceeds the 30- 
percent maximum, the pharmacy must obtain a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor permit. 

3.The transfer of prescription drugs that appear in any schedule contained in 
chapter 893 is subject to chapter 893 and the federal Comprehensive Drug Abuse 
Prevention and Control Act of 1970. 

4.The transfer is between a retail pharmacy and another retail pharmacy, or a 

Modified Class II institutional pharmacy, or a health care practitioner licensed in this 
state and authorized by law to dispense or prescribe prescription drugs. 

5.All records of sales of prescription drugs subject to this section must be 
maintained separate and distinct from other records and comply with the 
recordkeeping requirements of this part. 

(g)Restricted prescription drug distributor permit.— 
l.A restricted prescription drug distributor permit is required for: 
a.Any person located in this state who engages in the distribution of a prescription 

drug, which distribution is not considered "wholesale distribution" under s. 
499.003(54)(a). 



b.Any person located in this state who engages in the receipt or distribution of a 

prescription drug in this state for the purpose of processing its return or its 
destruction if such person is not the person initiating the return, the prescription 
drug wholesale supplier of the person initiating the return, or the manufacturer of 
the drug. 

c.A blood establishment located in this state which collects blood and blood 
components only from volunteer donors as defined in s. 381.06014 or pursuant to an 
authorized practitioner's order for medical treatment or therapy and engages in the 
wholesale distribution of a prescription drug not described in s. 499.003(54)(d) to a 

health care entity. A mobile blood unit operated by a blood establishment permitted 
under this sub-subparagraph is not required to be separately permitted. The health 
care entity receiving a prescription drug distributed under this sub-subparagraph 
must be licensed as a closed pharmacy or provide health care services at that 
establishment. The blood establishment must operate in accordance with s. 
381.06014 and may distribute only: 

(I)Prescription drugs indicated for a bleeding or clotting disorder or anemia; 
(II)Blood-collection containers approved under s. 505 of the federal act; 
(III)Drugs that are blood derivatives, or a recombinant or synthetic form of a blood 

derivative; 
(IV)Prescription drugs that are identified in rules adopted by the department and 

that are essential to services performed or provided by blood establishments and 
authorized for distribution by blood establishments under federal law; or 

(V)To the extent authorized by federal law, drugs necessary to collect blood or 
blood components from volunteer blood donors; for blood establishment personnel to 
perform therapeutic procedures under the direction and supervision of a licensed 
physician; and to diagnose, treat, manage, and prevent any reaction of a volunteer 
blood donor or a patient undergoing a therapeutic procedure performed under the 
direction and supervision of a licensed physician, 

as long as all of the health care services provided by the blood establishment are related to its 
activities as a registered blood establishment or the health care services consist of collecting, 
processing, storing, or administering human hematopoietic stem cells or progenitor cells or 
performing diagnostic testing of specimens if such specimens are tested together with 
specimens undergoing routine donor testing. The blood establishment may purchase and 
possess the drugs described in this sub-subparagraph without a health care clinic establishment 
permit. 

2.Storage, handling, and recordkeeping of these distributions by a person required 
to be permitted as a restricted prescription drug distributor must be in accordance 
with the requirements for wholesale distributors under s. 499.0121, but not those set 
forth in s. 499.01212 if the distribution occurs pursuant to sub-subparagraph l.a. or 
sub-subparagraph 1.b. 

3.A person who applies for a permit as a restricted prescription drug distributor, or 
for the renewal of such a permit, must provide to the department the information 
required under s. 499.012. 

4.The department may adopt rules regarding the distribution of prescription drugs 
by hospitals, health care entities, charitable organizations, other persons not 
involved in wholesale distribution, and blood establishments, which rules are 
necessary for the protection of the public health, safety, and welfare. 

(h)Complimentary drug distributor permit.—A complimentary drug distributor 
permit is required for any person that engages in the distribution of a complimentary 
drug, subject to the requirements of s. 499.028. 



(i)Freight forwarder permit.—A freight forwarder permit is required for any person 
that engages in the distribution of a prescription drug as a freight forwarder unless 
the person is a common carrier. The storage, handling, and recordkeeping of such 
distributions must comply with the requirements for wholesale distributors under s. 
499.0121, but not those set forth in s. 499.01212. A freight forwarder must provide 
the source of the prescription drugs with a validated airway bill, bill of lading, or 
other appropriate documentation to evidence the exportation of the product. 

(j)Veterinary prescription drug retail establishment permit.—A veterinary 
prescription drug retail establishment permit is required for any person that sells 
veterinary prescription drugs to the public but does not include a pharmacy licensed 
under chapter 465. 

1.The sale to the public must be based on a valid written order from a veterinarian 
licensed in this state who has a valid client-veterinarian relationship with the 
purchaser's animal. 

2.Veterinary prescription drugs may not be sold in excess of the amount clearly 
indicated on the order or beyond the date indicated on the order. 

3.An order may not be valid for more than 1 year. 
4.A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment may not purchase, sell, trade, 

or possess human prescription drugs or any controlled substance as defined in 
chapter 893. 

5.A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment must sell a veterinary 
prescription drug in the original, sealed manufacturer's container with all labeling 
intact and legible. The department may adopt by rule additional labeling 
requirements for the sale of a veterinary prescription drug. 

6.A veterinary prescription drug retail establishment must comply with all of the 
wholesale distribution requirements of s. 499.0121. 

7.Prescription drugs sold by a veterinary prescription drug retail establishment 
pursuant to a practitioner's order may not be returned into the retail establishment's 
inventory. 

(k)Veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor permit.—A veterinary 
prescription drug wholesale distributor permit is required for any person that 
engages in the distribution of veterinary prescription drugs in or into this state. A 
veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor that also distributes prescription 
drugs subject to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, 
and Cosmetic Act which it did not manufacture must obtain a permit as a 

prescription drug wholesale distributor, an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, or a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor in lieu of 
the veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor permit. A veterinary 
prescription drug wholesale distributor must comply with the requirements for 
wholesale distributors under s. 499.0121, but not those set forth in s. 499.01212. 

(l)Limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor permit.—Unless 
engaging in the activities of and permitted as a prescription drug manufacturer, 
nonresident prescription drug manufacturer, prescription drug wholesale distributor, 
or out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, a limited prescription drug 
veterinary wholesale distributor permit is required for any person that engages in the 
distribution in or into this state of veterinary prescription drugs and prescription 
drugs subject to, defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, 
and Cosmetic Act under the following conditions: 

1.The person is engaged in the business of wholesaling prescription and veterinary 
prescription drugs to persons: 

a.Licensed as veterinarians practicing on a full-time basis; 
b.Regularly and lawfully engaged in instruction in veterinary medicine; 
c.Regularly and lawfully engaged in law enforcement activities; 



d.For use in research not involving clinical use; or 
e.For use in chemical analysis or physical testing or for purposes of instruction in 

law enforcement activities, research, or testing. 
2.No more than 30 percent of total annual prescription drug sales may be 

prescription drugs approved for human use which are subject to, defined by, or 
described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. 

3.The person does not distribute in any jurisdiction prescription drugs subject to, 
defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act to 
any person who is authorized to sell, distribute, purchase, trade, or use these drugs 
on or for humans. 

4.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor that applies to the 
department for a new permit or the renewal of a permit must submit a bond of 
$20,000, or other equivalent means of security acceptable to the department, such 
as an irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit in a trust account or financial 
institution, payable to the Professional Regulation Trust Fund. The purpose of the 
bond is to secure payment of any administrative penalties imposed by the 
department and any fees and costs incurred by the department regarding that 
permit which are authorized under state law and which the permittee fails to pay 30 
days after the fine or costs become final. The department may make a claim against 
such bond or security until 1 year after the permittee's license ceases to be valid or 
until 60 days after any administrative or legal proceeding authorized in this part 
which involves the permittee is concluded, including any appeal, whichever occurs 
later. 

5.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor must maintain at all 
times a license or permit to engage in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs 
in compliance with laws of the state in which it is a resident. 

6.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor must comply with the 
requirements for wholesale distributors under ss. 499.0121 and 499.01212, except 
that a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor is not required to 
provide a pedigree paper as required by s. 499.01212 upon the wholesale 
distribution of a prescription drug to a veterinarian. 

7.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor may not return to 
inventory for subsequent wholesale distribution any prescription drug subject to, 
defined by, or described by s. 503(b) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 
which has been returned by a veterinarian. 

8.A limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor permit is not required 
for an intracompany sale or transfer of a prescription drug from an out-of-state 
establishment that is duly licensed to engage in the wholesale distribution of 
prescription drugs in its state of residence to a licensed limited prescription drug 
veterinary wholesale distributor in this state if both wholesale distributors conduct 
wholesale distributions of prescription drugs under the same business name. The 
recordkeeping requirements of ss. 499.0121(6) and 499.01212 must be followed for 
this transaction. 

(m)Medical oxygen retail establishment permit.—A medical oxygen retail 
establishment permit is required for any person that sells medical oxygen to patients 
only. The sale must be based on an order from a practitioner authorized by law to 
prescribe. The term does not include a pharmacy licensed under chapter 465. 

l.A medical oxygen retail establishment may not possess, purchase, sell, or trade 
any prescription drug other than medical oxygen. 

2.A medical oxygen retail establishment may refill medical oxygen for an individual 
patient based on an order from a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe. A 
medical oxygen retail establishment that refills medical oxygen must comply with all 
appropriate state and federal good manufacturing practices. 



3.A medical oxygen retail establishment must comply with all of the wholesale 
distribution requirements of s. 499.0121. 

4.Prescription medical oxygen sold by a medical oxygen retail establishment 
pursuant to a practitioner's order may not be returned into the retail establishment's 
inventory. 

(n)Compressed medical gas wholesale distributor permit.—A compressed medical 
gas wholesale distributor is a wholesale distributor that is limited to the wholesale 
distribution of compressed medical gases to other than the consumer or patient. The 
compressed medical gas must be in the original sealed container that was purchased 
by that wholesale distributor. A compressed medical gas wholesale distributor may 
not possess or engage in the wholesale distribution of any prescription drug other 
than compressed medical gases. The department shall adopt rules that govern the 
wholesale distribution of prescription medical oxygen for emergency use. With 
respect to the emergency use of prescription medical oxygen, those rules may not be 
inconsistent with rules and regulations of federal agencies unless the Legislature 
specifically directs otherwise. 

(o)Compressed medical gas manufacturer permit.—A compressed medical gas 
manufacturer permit is required for any person that engages in the manufacture of 
compressed medical gases or repackages compressed medical gases from one 
container to another. 

l.A compressed medical gas manufacturer may not manufacture or possess any 
prescription drug other than compressed medical gases. 

2.A compressed medical gas manufacturer may engage in wholesale distribution of 
compressed medical gases manufactured at that establishment and must comply 
with all the provisions of this part and the rules adopted under this part that apply to 
a wholesale distributor. 

3.A compressed medical gas manufacturer must comply with all appropriate state 
and federal good manufacturing practices. 

(p)Over-the-counter drug manufacturer permit.—An over-the-counter drug 
manufacturer permit is required for any person that engages in the manufacture or 
repackaging of an over-the-counter drug. 

1.An over-the-counter drug manufacturer may not possess or purchase 
prescription drugs. 

2.A pharmacy is exempt from obtaining an over-the-counter drug manufacturer 
permit if it is operating in compliance with pharmacy practice standards as defined in 
chapter 465 and the rules adopted under that chapter. 

3.An over-the-counter drug manufacturer must comply with all appropriate state 
and federal good manufacturing practices. 

(q)Device manufacturer permit.— 
l.A device manufacturer permit is required for any person that engages in the 

manufacture, repackaging, or assembly of medical devices for human use in this 
state, except that a permit is not required if: 

a.The person is engaged only in manufacturing, repackaging, or assembling a 

medical device pursuant to a practitioner's order for a specific patient; or 
b.The person does not manufacture, repackage, or assemble any medical devices 

or components for such devices, except those devices or components which are 
exempt from registration pursuant to s. 499.015(8). 

2.A manufacturer or repackager of medical devices in this state must comply with 
all appropriate state and federal good manufacturing practices and quality system 
rules. 

3.The department shall adopt rules related to storage, handling, and recordkeeping 
requirements for manufacturers of medical devices for human use. 



(r)Cosmetic manufacturer permit.—A cosmetic manufacturer permit is required for 
any person that manufactures or repackages cosmetics in this state. A person that 
only labels or changes the labeling of a cosmetic but does not open the container 
sealed by the manufacturer of the product is exempt from obtaining a permit under 
this paragraph. 

(s)Third party logistics provider permit.—A third party logistics provider permit is 
required for any person that contracts with a prescription drug wholesale distributor 
or prescription drug manufacturer to provide warehousing, distribution, or other 
logistics services on behalf of a manufacturer or wholesale distributor, but who does 
not take title to the prescription drug or have responsibility to direct the sale or 
disposition of the prescription drug. Each third party logistics provider permittee shall 
comply with the requirements for wholesale distributors under ss. 499.0121 and 
499.01212, with the exception of those wholesale distributions described in s. 
499.01212(3)(a), and other rules that the department requires. 

(t)Health care clinic establishment permit.—Effective January 1, 2009, a health 
care clinic establishment permit is required for the purchase of a prescription drug by 
a place of business at one general physical location that provides health care or 
veterinary services, which is owned and operated by a business entity that has been 
issued a federal employer tax identification number. For the purpose of this 
paragraph, the term "qualifying practitioner" means a licensed health care 
practitioner defined in s. 456.001, or a veterinarian licensed under chapter 474, who 
is authorized under the appropriate practice act to prescribe and administer a 

prescription drug. 
1.An establishment must provide, as part of the application required under s. 

499.012, designation of a qualifying practitioner who will be responsible for 
complying with all legal and regulatory requirements related to the purchase, 
recordkeeping, storage, and handling of the prescription drugs. In addition, the 
designated qualifying practitioner shall be the practitioner whose name, 
establishment address, and license number is used on all distribution documents for 
prescription drugs purchased or returned by the health care clinic establishment. 
Upon initial appointment of a qualifying practitioner, the qualifying practitioner and 
the health care clinic establishment shall notify the department on a form furnished 
by the department within 10 days after such employment. In addition, the qualifying 
practitioner and health care clinic establishment shall notify the department within 
10 days after any subsequent change. 

2.The health care clinic establishment must employ a qualifying practitioner at 
each establishment. 

3.In addition to the remedies and penalties provided in this part, a violation of this 
chapter by the health care clinic establishment or qualifying practitioner constitutes 
grounds for discipline of the qualifying practitioner by the appropriate regulatory 
board. 

4.The purchase of prescription drugs by the health care clinic establishment is 
prohibited during any period of time when the establishment does not comply with 
this paragraph. 

5.A health care clinic establishment permit is not a pharmacy permit or otherwise 
subject to chapter 465. A health care clinic establishment that meets the criteria of a 

modified Class II institutional pharmacy under s. 465.019 is not eligible to be 
permitted under this paragraph. 

6.This paragraph does not apply to the purchase of a prescription drug by a 

licensed practitioner under his or her license. 
(3)A nonresident prescription drug manufacturer permit is not required for a 

manufacturer to distribute a prescription drug active pharmaceutical ingredient that 
it manufactures to a prescription drug manufacturer permitted in this state in limited 



quantities intended for research and development and not for resale or human use 
other than lawful clinical trials and biostudies authorized and regulated by federal 
law. A manufacturer claiming to be exempt from the permit requirements of this 
subsection and the prescription drug manufacturer purchasing and receiving the 
active pharmaceutical ingredient shall comply with the recordkeeping requirements 
of s. 499.0121(6), but not the requirements of s. 499.01212. The prescription drug 
manufacturer purchasing and receiving the active pharmaceutical ingredient shall 
maintain on file a record of the FDA registration number; if available, the out-of- 
state license, permit, or registration number; and, if available, a copy of the most 
current FDA inspection report, for all manufacturers from whom they purchase active 
pharmaceutical ingredients under this section. The department shall define the term 
"limited quantities" by rule, and may include the allowable number of transactions 
within a given period of time and the amount of prescription drugs distributed into 
the state for purposes of this exemption. The failure to comply with the requirements 
of this subsection, or rules adopted by the department to administer this subsection, 
for the purchase of prescription drug active pharmaceutical ingredients is a violation 
of s. 499.005(14), and a knowing failure is a violation of s. 499.0051(4). 

(4)(a)A permit issued under this part is not required to distribute a prescription 
drug active pharmaceutical ingredient from an establishment located in the United 
States to an establishment located in this state permitted as a prescription drug 
manufacturer under this part for use by the recipient in preparing, deriving, 
processing, producing, or fabricating a prescription drug finished dosage form at the 
establishment in this state where the product is received under an approved and 
otherwise valid New Drug Approval Application, Abbreviated New Drug Application, 
New Animal Drug Application, or Therapeutic Biologic Application, provided that the 
application, active pharmaceutical ingredient, or finished dosage form has not been 
withdrawn or removed from the market in this country for public health reasons. 

1.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph shall maintain a license, permit, or registration to engage in the 
wholesale distribution of prescription drugs under the laws of the state from which 
the product is distributed. 

2.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph and the prescription drug manufacturer purchasing and receiving the 
active pharmaceutical ingredient shall comply with the recordkeeping requirements 
of s. 499.0121(6), but not the requirements of s. 499.01212. 

(b)A permit issued under this part is not required to distribute limited quantities of 
a prescription drug that has not been repackaged from an establishment located in 
the United States to an establishment located in this state permitted as a 

prescription drug manufacturer under this part for research and development or to a 

holder of a letter of exemption issued by the department under s. 499.03(4) for 
research, teaching, or testing. The department shall define "limited quantities" by 
rule and may include the allowable number of transactions within a given period of 
time and the amounts of prescription drugs distributed into the state for purposes of 
this exemption. 

1.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph shall maintain a license, permit, or registration to engage in the 
wholesale distribution of prescription drugs under the laws of the state from which 
the product is distributed. 

2.All purchasers and recipients of any prescription drugs distributed pursuant to 
this paragraph shall ensure that the products are not resold or used, directly or 
indirectly, on humans except in lawful clinical trials and biostudies authorized and 
regulated by federal law. 



3.Any distributor claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to 
this paragraph, and the purchaser and recipient of the prescription drug, shall 
comply with the recordkeeping requirements of s. 499.0121(6), but not the 
requirements of s. 499.01212. 

4.The immediate package or container of any active pharmaceutical ingredient 
distributed into the state that is intended for teaching, testing, research, and 
development shall bear a label prominently displaying the statement: "Caution: 
Research, Teaching, or Testing Only — Not for Manufacturing, Compounding, or 
Resale." 

(c)An out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit is not required for 
an intracompany sale or transfer of a prescription drug from an out-of-state 
establishment that is duly licensed as a prescription drug wholesale distributor in its 
state of residence to a licensed prescription drug wholesale distributor in this state, if 
both wholesale distributors conduct wholesale distributions of prescription drugs 
under the same business name. The recordkeeping requirements of ss. 499.0121(6) 
and 499.01212 must be followed for such transactions. 

(d)Persons receiving prescription drugs from a source claimed to be exempt from 
permitting requirements under this subsection shall maintain on file: 

l.A record of the FDA establishment registration number, if any; 
2.The resident state prescription drug wholesale distribution license, permit, or 

registration number; and 
3.A copy of the most recent resident state or FDA inspection report, for all 

distributors and establishments from whom they purchase or receive prescription 
drugs under this subsection. 

(e)All persons claiming exemption from permitting requirements pursuant to this 
subsection who engage in the distribution of prescription drugs within or into the 
state are subject to this part, including ss. 499.005 and 499.0051, and shall make 
available, within 48 hours, to the department on request all records related to any 
prescription drugs distributed under this subsection, including those records 
described in s. 499.051(4), regardless of the location where the records are stored. 

(f)A person purchasing and receiving a prescription drug from a person claimed to 
be exempt from licensing requirements pursuant to this subsection shall report to 
the department in writing within 14 days after receiving any product that is 
misbranded or adulterated or that fails to meet minimum standards set forth in the 
official compendium or state or federal good manufacturing practices for identity, 
purity, potency, or sterility, regardless of whether the product is thereafter 
rehabilitated, quarantined, returned, or destroyed. 

(g)The department may adopt rules to administer this subsection which are 
necessary for the protection of the public health, safety, and welfare. Failure to 
comply with the requirements of this subsection, or rules adopted by the department 
to administer this subsection, is a violation of s. 499.005(14), and a knowing failure 
is a violation of s. 499.0051(4). 

(h)This subsection does not relieve any person from any requirement prescribed by 
law with respect to controlled substances as defined in the applicable federal and 
state laws. 

(5)A prescription drug repackager permit issued under this part is not required for 
a restricted prescription drug distributor permitholder that is a health care entity to 
repackage prescription drugs in this state for its own use or for distribution to 
hospitals or other health care entities in the state for their own use, pursuant to s. 
499.003(54)(a)3., if: 

(a)The prescription drug distributor notifies the department, in writing, of its 
intention to engage in repackaging under this exemption, 30 days before engaging in 
the repackaging of prescription drugs at the permitted establishment; 



(b)The prescription drug distributor is under common control with the hospitals or 
other health care entities to which the prescription drug distributor is distributing 
prescription drugs. As used in this paragraph, "common control" means the power to 
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person or an 
organization, whether by ownership of stock, voting rights, contract, or otherwise; 

(c)The prescription drug distributor repackages the prescription drugs in 
accordance with current state and federal good manufacturing practices; and 

(d)The prescription drug distributor labels the prescription drug it repackages in 
accordance with state and federal laws and rules. 

The prescription drug distributor is exempt from the product registration requirements of s. 

499.015 with regard to the prescription drugs that it repackages and distributes under this 
subsection. 

History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 108, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 14, 15, 18, 19, 
52, ch. 92-69; ss. 30, 31, 34, 35, ch. 98-151; ss. 37, 40, ch. 2000-242; s. 20, ch. 
2001-53; s. 138, ch. 2001-277; ss. 11, 12, 13, 14, 18, 19, ch. 2003-155; s. 85, ch. 
2004-5; ss. 2, 3, ch. 2004-328; ss. 2, 3, ch. 2006-92; ss. 22, 25, ch. 2007-6; ss. 
10, 11, ch. 2008-207; s. 2, ch. 2009-221; ss. 23, 39, ch. 2010-161; s. 4, ch. 2012- 
37; s. 34, ch. 2012-61; s. 11, ch. 2012-143. 
'Note.—The word "from" was inserted by the editors. 
Note.—Subsection (2) intro, former s. 499.012(2) intro.; paragraph (2)(c) former s. 
499.012(2)(e); paragraph (2)(d) former s. 499.012(2)(a); paragraph (2)(e) former 
s. 499.012(2)(c); paragraph (2)(f) former s. 499.012(2)(d); paragraph (2)(g) 
former s. 499.014; paragraph (2)(i) former s. 499.012(2)(f); paragraph (2)(k) 
former s. 499.012(2)(g); paragraph (2)(l) former s. 499.012(2)(h); paragraph 
(2)(n) former s. 499.012(2)(b); paragraph (2)(o) former s. 499.013(2)(c); 
paragraph (2)(p) former s. 499.013(2)(b); paragraph (2)(q) former s. 
499.013(2)(d); paragraph (2)(r) former s. 499.013(2)(e). 

499.Ol2Permit application requirements.— 
(1)(a)A permit issued pursuant to this part may be issued only to a natural person 

who is at least 18 years of age or to an applicant that is not a natural person if each 
person who, directly or indirectly, manages, controls, or oversees the operation of 
that applicant is at least 18 years of age. 

(b)An establishment that is a place of residence may not receive a permit and may 
not operate under this part. 

(c)A person that applies for or renews a permit to manufacture or distribute 
prescription drugs may not use a name identical to the name used by any other 
establishment or licensed person authorized to purchase prescription drugs in this 
state, except that a restricted drug distributor permit issued to a health care entity 
will be issued in the name in which the institutional pharmacy permit is issued and a 

retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor will be issued a permit in the name of its 
retail pharmacy permit. 

(d)A permit for a prescription drug manufacturer, prescription drug repackager, 
prescription drug wholesale distributor, limited prescription drug veterinary 
wholesale distributor, or retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor may not be 
issued to the address of a health care entity or to a pharmacy licensed under chapter 
465, except as provided in this paragraph. The department may issue a prescription 
drug manufacturer permit to an applicant at the same address as a licensed nuclear 
pharmacy, which is a health care entity, for the purpose of manufacturing 
prescription drugs used in positron emission tomography or other 
radiopharmaceuticals, as listed in a rule adopted by the department pursuant to this 
paragraph. The purpose of this exemption is to assure availability of state-of-the-art 



pharmaceuticals that would pose a significant danger to the public health if 
manufactured at a separate establishment address from the nuclear pharmacy from 
which the prescription drugs are dispensed. The department may also issue a retail 
pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit to the address of a community 
pharmacy licensed under chapter 465 which does not meet the definition of a closed 
pharmacy in s. 499.003. 

(e)A county or municipality may not issue an occupational license for any licensing 
period beginning on or after October 1, 2003, for any establishment that requires a 

permit pursuant to this part, unless the establishment exhibits a current permit 
issued by the department for the establishment. Upon presentation of the requisite 
permit issued by the department, an occupational license may be issued by the 
municipality or county in which application is made. The department shall furnish to 
local agencies responsible for issuing occupational licenses a current list of all 
establishments licensed pursuant to this part. 

(2)Notwithstanding subsection (6), a permitted person in good standing may 
change the type of permit issued to that person by completing a new application for 
the requested permit, paying the amount of the difference in the permit fees if the 
fee for the new permit is more than the fee for the original permit, and meeting the 
applicable permitting conditions for the new permit type. The new permit expires on 
the expiration date of the original permit being changed; however, a new permit for 
a prescription drug wholesale distributor, an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, or a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor shall expire on the 
expiration date of the original permit or 1 year after the date of issuance of the new 
permit, whichever is earlier. A refund may not be issued if the fee for the new permit 
is less than the fee that was paid for the original permit. 

(3)A written application for a permit or to renew a permit must be filed with the 
department on forms furnished by the department. The department shall establish, 
by rule, the form and content of the application to obtain or renew a permit. The 
applicant must submit to the department with the application a statement that 
swears or affirms that the information is true and correct. 

(4)(a)Except for a permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of- 
state prescription drug wholesale distributor, an application for a permit must 
include: 

1.The name, full business address, and telephone number of the applicant; 
2.All trade or business names used by the applicant; 
3.The address, telephone numbers, and the names of contact persons for each 

facility used by the applicant for the storage, handling, and distribution of 
prescription drugs; 

4.The type of ownership or operation, such as a partnership, corporation, or sole 
proprietorship; and 

5.The names of the owner and the operator of the establishment, including: 
a.If an individual, the name of the individual; 
b.If a partnership, the name of each partner and the name of the partnership; 
c.If a corporation, the name and title of each corporate officer and director, the 

corporate names, and the name of the state of incorporation; 
d.If a sole proprietorship, the full name of the sole proprietor and the name of the 

business entity; 
e.If a limited liability company, the name of each member, the name of each 

manager, the name of the limited liability company, and the name of the state in 
which the limited liability company was organized; and 

f.Any other relevant information that the department requires. 



(b)Upon approval of the application by the department and payment of the 
required fee, the department shall issue a permit to the applicant, if the applicant 
meets the requirements of this part and rules adopted under this part. 

(c)Any change in information required under paragraph (a) must be submitted to 
the department before the change occurs. 

(d)The department shall consider, at a minimum, the following factors in reviewing 
the qualifications of persons to be permitted under this part: 

1.The applicant's having been found guilty, regardless of adjudication, in a court of 
this state or other jurisdiction, of a violation of a law that directly relates to a drug, 
device, or cosmetic. A plea of nob contendere constitutes a finding of guilt for 
purposes of this subparagraph. 

2.The applicant's having been disciplined by a regulatory agency in any state for 
any offense that would constitute a violation of this part. 

3.Any felony conviction of the applicant under a federal, state, or local law; 
4.The applicant's past experience in manufacturing or distributing drugs, devices, 

or cosmetics; 
5.The furnishing by the applicant of false or fraudulent material in any application 

made in connection with manufacturing or distributing drugs, devices, or cosmetics; 
6.Suspension or revocation by a federal, state, or local government of any permit 

currently or previously held by the applicant for the manufacture or distribution of 
any drugs, devices, or cosmetics; 

7.Compliance with permitting requirements under any previously granted permits; 
8.Compliance with requirements to maintain or make available to the state 

permitting authority or to federal, state, or local law enforcement officials those 
records required under this section; and 

9.Any other factors or qualifications the department considers relevant to and 
consistent with the public health and safety. 

(5)Except for a permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of- 
state prescription drug wholesale distributor: 

(a)The department shall adopt rules for the biennial renewal of permits. 
(b)The department shall renew a permit upon receipt of the renewal application 

and renewal fee if the applicant meets the requirements established under this part 
and the rules adopted under this part. 

(c)A permit, unless sooner suspended or revoked, automatically expires 2 years 
after the last day of the anniversary month in which the permit was originally issued. 
A permit issued under this part may be renewed by making application for renewal 
on forms furnished by the department and paying the appropriate fees. If a renewal 
application and fee are submitted and postmarked after the expiration date of the 
permit, the permit may be renewed only upon payment of a late renewal delinquent 
fee of $100, plus the required renewal fee, not later than 60 days after the 
expiration date. 

(d)Failure to renew a permit in accordance with this section precludes any future 
renewal of that permit. If a permit issued pursuant to this part has expired and 
cannot be renewed, before an establishment may engage in activities that require a 

permit under this part, the establishment must submit an application for a new 
permit, pay the applicable application fee, the initial permit fee, and all applicable 
penalties, and be issued a new permit by the department. 

(6)A permit issued by the department is nontransferable. Each permit is valid only 
for the person or governmental unit to which it is issued and is not subject to sale, 
assignment, or other transfer, voluntarily or involuntarily; nor is a permit valid for 
any establishment other than the establishment for which it was originally issued. 



(a)A person permitted under this part must notify the department before making a 

change of address. The department shall set a change of location fee not to exceed 
$100. 

(b)1.An application for a new permit is required when a majority of the ownership 
or controlling interest of a permitted establishment is transferred or assigned or 
when a lessee agrees to undertake or provide services to the extent that legal 
liability for operation of the establishment will rest with the lessee. The application 
for the new permit must be made before the date of the sale, transfer, assignment, 
or lease. 

2.A permittee that is authorized to distribute prescription drugs may transfer such 
drugs to the new owner or lessee under subparagraph 1. only after the new owner or 
lessee has been approved for a permit to distribute prescription drugs. 

(c)If an establishment permitted under this part closes, the owner must notify the 
department in writing before the effective date of closure and must: 

1.Return the permit to the department; 
2.If the permittee is authorized to distribute prescription drugs, indicate the 

disposition of such drugs, including the name, address, and inventory, and provide 
the name and address of a person to contact regarding access to records that are 
required to be maintained under this part. Transfer of ownership of prescription 
drugs may be made only to persons authorized to possess prescription drugs under 
this part. 

The department may revoke the permit of any person that fails to comply with the 
requirements of this subsection. 

(7)A permit must be posted in a conspicuous place on the licensed premises. 
(8)An application for a permit or to renew a permit for a prescription drug 

wholesale distributor or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor 
submitted to the department must include: 

(a)The name, full business address, and telephone number of the applicant. 
(b)All trade or business names used by the applicant. 
(c)The address, telephone numbers, and the names of contact persons for each 

facility used by the applicant for the storage, handling, and distribution of 
prescription drugs. 

(d)The type of ownership or operation, such as a partnership, corporation, or sole 
proprietorship. 

(e)The names of the owner and the operator of the establishment, including: 
1.If an individual, the name of the individual. 
2.If a partnership, the name of each partner and the name of the partnership. 
3.If a corporation: 
a.The name, address, and title of each corporate officer and director. 
b.The name and address of the corporation, resident agent of the corporation, the 

resident agent's address, and the corporation's state of incorporation. 
c.The name and address of each shareholder of the corporation that owns 5 

percent or more of the outstanding stock of the corporation. 
4.If a sole proprietorship, the full name of the sole proprietor and the name of the 

business entity. 
5.If a limited liability company: 
a.The name and address of each member. 
b.The name and address of each manager. 
c.The name and address of the limited liability company, the resident agent of the 

limited liability company, and the name of the state in which the limited liability 
company was organized. 



(f)If applicable, the name and address of each member of the affiliated group of 
which the applicant is a member. 

(g)1.For an application for a new permit, the estimated annual dollar volume of 
prescription drug sales of the applicant, the estimated annual percentage of the 
applicant's total company sales that are prescription drugs, the applicant's estimated 
annual total dollar volume of purchases of prescription drugs, and the applicant's 
estimated annual total dollar volume of prescription drug purchases directly from 
manufacturers. 

2.For an application to renew a permit, the total dollar volume of prescription drug 
sales in the previous year, the total dollar volume of prescription drug sales made in 
the previous 6 months, the percentage of total company sales that were prescription 
drugs in the previous year, the total dollar volume of purchases of prescription drugs 
in the previous year, and the total dollar volume of prescription drug purchases 
directly from manufacturers in the previous year. 

Such portions of the information required pursuant to this paragraph which are a trade secret, 
as defined in s. 812.081, shall be maintained by the department as trade secret information is 
required to be maintained under s. 499.051. 

(h)The tax year of the applicant. 
(i)A copy of the deed for the property on which applicant's establishment is 

located, if the establishment is owned by the applicant, or a copy of the applicant's 
lease for the property on which applicant's establishment is located that has an 
original term of not less than 1 calendar year, if the establishment is not owned by 
the applicant. 

(j)A list of all licenses and permits issued to the applicant by any other state which 
authorize the applicant to purchase or possess prescription drugs. 

(k)The name of the manager of the establishment that is applying for the permit or 
to renew the permit, the next four highest ranking employees responsible for 
prescription drug wholesale operations for the establishment, and the name of all 
affiliated parties for the establishment, together with the personal information 
statement and fingerprints required pursuant to subsection (9) for each of such 
persons. 

(l)The name of each of the applicant's designated representatives as required by 
subsection (16), together with the personal information statement and fingerprints 
required pursuant to subsection (9) for each such person. 

(m)For an applicant that is a secondary wholesale distributor, each of the 
following: 

l.A personal background information statement containing the background 
information and fingerprints required pursuant to subsection (9) for each person 
named in the applicant's response to paragraphs (k) and (I) and for each affiliated 
party of the applicant. 

2.If any of the five largest shareholders of the corporation seeking the permit is a 

corporation, the name, address, and title of each corporate officer and director of 
each such corporation; the name and address of such corporation; the name of such 
corporation's resident agent, such corporation's resident agent's address, and such 
corporation's state of its incorporation; and the name and address of each 
shareholder of such corporation that owns 5 percent or more of the stock of such 
corporation. 

3.The name and address of all financial institutions in which the applicant has an 
account which is used to pay for the operation of the establishment or to pay for 
drugs purchased for the establishment, together with the names of all persons that 
are authorized signatories on such accounts. The portions of the information required 



pursuant to this subparagraph which are a trade secret, as defined in s. 812.081, 
shall be maintained by the department as trade secret information is required to be 
maintained under s. 499.051. 

4.The sources of all funds and the amounts of such funds used to purchase or 
finance purchases of prescription drugs or to finance the premises on which the 
establishment is to be located. 

5.If any of the funds identified in subparagraph 4. were borrowed, copies of all 
promissory notes or loans used to obtain such funds. 

(n)Any other relevant information that the department requires, including, but not 
limited to, any information related to whether the applicant satisfies the definition of 
a primary wholesale distributor or a secondary wholesale distributor. 

(o)Documentation of the credentialing policies and procedures required by s. 
499.0121(15). 

(9)(a)Each person required by subsection (8) to provide a personal information 
statement and fingerprints shall provide the following information to the department 
on forms prescribed by the department: 

1.The person's places of residence for the past 7 years. 
2.The person's date and place of birth. 
3.The person's occupations, positions of employment, and offices held during the 

past 7 years. 
4.The principal business and address of any business, corporation, or other 

organization in which each such office of the person was held or in which each such 
occupation or position of employment was carried on. 

5.Whether the person has been, during the past 7 years, the subject of any 
proceeding for the revocation of any license and, if so, the nature of the proceeding 
and the disposition of the proceeding. 

6.Whether, during the past 7 years, the person has been enjoined, temporarily or 
permanently, by a court of competent jurisdiction from violating any federal or state 
law regulating the possession, control, or distribution of prescription drugs, together 
with details concerning any such event. 

7.A description of any involvement by the person with any business, including any 
investments, other than the ownership of stock in a publicly traded company or 
mutual fund, during the past 7 years, which manufactured, administered, prescribed, 
distributed, or stored pharmaceutical products and any lawsuits in which such 
businesses were named as a party. 

8.A description of any felony criminal offense of which the person, as an adult, was 
found guilty, regardless of whether adjudication of guilt was withheld or whether the 
person pled guilty or nob contendere. A criminal offense committed in another 
jurisdiction which would have been a felony in this state must be reported. If the 
person indicates that a criminal conviction is under appeal and submits a copy of the 
notice of appeal of that criminal offense, the applicant must, within 15 days after the 
disposition of the appeal, submit to the department a copy of the final written order 
of disposition. 

9.A photograph of the person taken in the previous 30 days. 
10.A set of fingerprints for the person on a form and under procedures specified by 

the department, together with payment of an amount equal to the costs incurred by 
the department for the criminal record check of the person. 

11.The name, address, occupation, and date and place of birth for each member of 
the person's immediate family who is 18 years of age or older. As used in this 
subparagraph, the term "member of the person's immediate family" includes the 
person's spouse, children, parents, siblings, the spouses of the person's children, and 
the spouses of the person's siblings. 

12.Any other relevant information that the department requires. 



(b)The information required pursuant to paragraph (a) shall be provided under 
oath. 

(c)The department shall submit the fingerprints provided by a person for initial 
licensure to the Department of Law Enforcement for a statewide criminal record 
check and for forwarding to the Federal Bureau of Investigation for a national 
criminal record check of the person. The department shall submit the fingerprints 
provided by a person as a part of a renewal application to the Department of Law 
Enforcement for a statewide criminal record check, and for forwarding to the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation for a national criminal record check, for the initial renewal of 
a permit after January 1, 2004; for any subsequent renewal of a permit, the 
department shall submit the required information for a statewide and national 
criminal record check of the person. Any person who as a part of an initial permit 
application or initial permit renewal after January 1, 2004, submits to the 
department a set of fingerprints required for the criminal record check required in 
this paragraph shall not be required to provide a subsequent set of fingerprints for a 

criminal record check to the department, if the person has undergone a criminal 
record check as a condition of the issuance of an initial permit or the initial renewal 
of a permit of an applicant after January 1, 2004. 

(10)The department may deny an application for a permit or refuse to renew a 

permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributor if: 

(a)The applicant has not met the requirements for the permit. 
(b)The management, officers, or directors of the applicant or any affiliated party 

are found by the department to be incompetent or untrustworthy. 
(c)The applicant is so lacking in experience in managing a wholesale distributor as 

to make the issuance of the proposed permit hazardous to the public health. 
(d)The applicant is so lacking in experience in managing a wholesale distributor as 

to jeopardize the reasonable promise of successful operation of the wholesale 
distributor. 

(e)The applicant is lacking in experience in the distribution of prescription drugs. 
(f)The applicant's past experience in manufacturing or distributing prescription 

drugs indicates that the applicant poses a public health risk. 
(g)The applicant is affiliated directly or indirectly through ownership, control, or 

other business relations, with any person or persons whose business operations are 
or have been detrimental to the public health. 

(h)The applicant, or any affiliated party, has been found guilty of or has pleaded 
guilty or nob contendere to any felony or crime punishable by imprisonment for 1 

year or more under the laws of the United States, any state, or any other country, 
regardless of whether adjudication of guilt was withheld. 

(i)The applicant or any affiliated party has been charged with a felony in a state or 
federal court and the disposition of that charge is pending during the application 
review or renewal review period. 

(j)The applicant has furnished false or fraudulent information or material in any 
application made in this state or any other state in connection with obtaining a 

permit or license to manufacture or distribute drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 
(k)That a federal, state, or local government permit currently or previously held by 

the applicant, or any affiliated party, for the manufacture or distribution of any 
drugs, devices, or cosmetics has been disciplined, suspended, or revoked and has 
not been reinstated. 

(l)The applicant does not possess the financial or physical resources to operate in 
compliance with the permit being sought, this chapter, and the rules adopted under 
this chapter. 



(m)The applicant or any affiliated party receives, directly or indirectly, financial 
support and assistance from a person who was an affiliated party of a permittee 
whose permit was subject to discipline or was suspended or revoked, other than 
through the ownership of stock in a publicly traded company or a mutual fund. 

(n)The applicant or any affiliated party receives, directly or indirectly, financial 
support and assistance from a person who has been found guilty of any violation of 
this part or chapter 465, chapter 501, or chapter 893, any rules adopted under this 
part or those chapters, any federal or state drug law, or any felony where the 
underlying facts related to drugs, regardless of whether the person has been 
pardoned, had her or his civil rights restored, or had adjudication withheld, other 
than through the ownership of stock in a publicly traded company or a mutual fund. 

(o)The applicant for renewal of a permit under s. 499.01(2)(d) or (e) has not 
actively engaged in the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs, as demonstrated 
by the regular and systematic distribution of prescription drugs throughout the year 
as evidenced by not fewer than 12 wholesale distributions in the previous year and 
not fewer than three wholesale distributions in the previous 6 months. 

(p)Information obtained in response to s. 499.01(2)(d) or (e) demonstrates it 
would not be in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare to issue a 

permit. 
(q)The applicant does not possess the financial standing and business experience 

for the successful operation of the applicant. 
(r)The applicant or any affiliated party has failed to comply with the requirements 

for manufacturing or distributing prescription drugs under this part, similar federal 
laws, similar laws in other states, or the rules adopted under such laws. 

(11)Upon approval of the application by the department and payment of the 
required fee, the department shall issue or renew a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit to the 
app Ii cant. 

(12)For a permit for a prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of-state 
prescription drug wholesale distributor: 

(a)The department shall adopt rules for the annual renewal of permits. At least 90 
days before the expiration of a permit, the department shall forward a permit 
renewal notification and renewal application to the prescription drug wholesale 
distributor or out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor at the mailing 
address of the permitted establishment on file with the department. The permit 
renewal notification must state conspicuously the date on which the permit for the 
establishment will expire and that the establishment may not operate unless the 
permit for the establishment is renewed timely. 

(b)A permit, unless sooner suspended or revoked, automatically expires 1 year 
after the last day of the anniversary month in which the permit was originally issued. 
A permit may be renewed by making application for renewal on forms furnished by 
the department and paying the appropriate fees. If a renewal application and fee are 
submitted and postmarked after 45 days prior to the expiration date of the permit, 
the permit may be renewed only upon payment of a late renewal fee of $100, plus 
the required renewal fee. A permittee that has submitted a renewal application in 
accordance with this paragraph may continue to operate under its permit, unless the 
permit is suspended or revoked, until final disposition of the renewal application. 

(c)Failure to renew a permit in accordance with this section precludes any future 
renewal of that permit. If a permit issued pursuant to this section has expired and 
cannot be renewed, before an establishment may engage in activities that require a 

permit under this part, the establishment must submit an application for a new 
permit; pay the applicable application fee, initial permit fee, and all applicable 
penalties; and be issued a new permit by the department. 



(13)A person that engages in wholesale distribution of prescription drugs in this 
state must have a wholesale distributor's permit issued by the department, except as 
noted in this section. Each establishment must be separately permitted except as 
noted in this subsection. 

(a)A separate establishment permit is not required when a permitted prescription 
drug wholesale distributor consigns a prescription drug to a pharmacy that is 
permitted under chapter 465 and located in this state, provided that: 

1.The consignor wholesale distributor notifies the department in writing of the 
contract to consign prescription drugs to a pharmacy along with the identity and 
location of each consignee pharmacy; 

2.The pharmacy maintains its permit under chapter 465; 
3.The consignor wholesale distributor, which has no legal authority to dispense 

prescription drugs, complies with all wholesale distribution requirements of ss. 
499.0121 and 499.01212 with respect to the consigned drugs and maintains records 
documenting the transfer of title or other completion of the wholesale distribution of 
the consigned prescription drugs; 

4.The distribution of the prescription drug is otherwise lawful under this chapter 
and other applicable law; 

5.Open packages containing prescription drugs within a pharmacy are the 
responsibility of the pharmacy, regardless of how the drugs are titled; and 

6.The pharmacy dispenses the consigned prescription drug in accordance with the 
limitations of its permit under chapter 465 or returns the consigned prescription drug 
to the consignor wholesale distributor. In addition, a person who holds title to 
prescription drugs may transfer the drugs to a person permitted or licensed to 
handle the reverse distribution or destruction of drugs. Any other distribution by and 
means of the consigned prescription drug by any person, not limited to the consignor 
wholesale distributor or consignee pharmacy, to any other person is prohibited. 

(b)A wholesale distributor's permit is not required for the one-time transfer of title 
of a pharmacy's lawfully acquired prescription drug inventory by a pharmacy with a 

valid permit issued under chapter 465 to a consignor prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, permitted under this chapter, in accordance with a written consignment 
agreement between the pharmacy and that wholesale distributor if the permitted 
pharmacy and the permitted prescription drug wholesale distributor comply with all 
of the provisions of paragraph (a) and the prescription drugs continue to be within 
the permitted pharmacy's inventory for dispensing in accordance with the limitations 
of the pharmacy permit under chapter 465. A consignor drug wholesale distributor 
may not use the pharmacy as a wholesale distributor through which it distributes the 
prescription drugs to other pharmacies. Nothing in this section is intended to prevent 
a wholesale distributor from obtaining this inventory in the event of nonpayment by 
the pharmacy. 

(c)A separate establishment permit is not required when a permitted prescription 
drug wholesale distributor operates temporary transit storage facilities for the sole 
purpose of storage, for up to 16 hours, of a delivery of prescription drugs when the 
wholesale distributor was temporarily unable to complete the delivery to the 
recipient. 

(d)The department shall require information from each wholesale distributor as 
part of the permit and renewal of such permit, as required under this section. 

(14)Personnel employed in wholesale distribution must have appropriate education 
and experience to enable them to perform their duties in compliance with state 
permitting requirements. 

(15)The name of a permittee or establishment on a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor permit or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit 
may not include any indicia of attainment of any educational degree, any indicia that 



the permittee or establishment possesses a professional license, or any name or 
abbreviation that the department determines is likely to cause confusion or mistake 
or that the department determines is deceptive, including that of any other entity 
authorized to purchase prescription drugs. 

(16)(a)Each establishment that is issued an initial or renewal permit as a 

prescription drug wholesale distributor or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor must designate in writing to the department at least one natural person to 
serve as the designated representative of the wholesale distributor. Such person 
must have an active certification as a designated representative from the 
department. 

(b)To be certified as a designated representative, a natural person must: 
1.Submit an application on a form furnished by the department and pay the 

appropriate fees; 
2.Be at least 18 years of age; 
3.Have not less than 2 years of verifiable full-time work experience in a pharmacy 

licensed in this state or another state, where the person's responsibilities included, 
but were not limited to, recordkeeping for prescription drugs, or have not less than 2 
years of verifiable full-time managerial experience with a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor licensed in this state or in another state; 

4.Receive a passing score of at least 75 percent on an examination given by the 
department regarding federal laws governing distribution of prescription drugs and 
this part and the rules adopted by the department governing the wholesale 
distribution of prescription drugs. This requirement shall be effective 1 year after the 
results of the initial examination are mailed to the persons that took the 
examination. The department shall offer such examinations at least four times each 
calendar year; and 

5.Provide the department with a personal information statement and fingerprints 
pursuant to subsection (9). 

(c)The department may deny an application for certification as a designated 
representative or may suspend or revoke a certification of a designated 
representative pursuant to s. 499.067. 

(d)A designated representative: 
1.Must be actively involved in and aware of the actual daily operation of the 

wholesale distributor. 
2.Must be employed full time in a managerial position by the wholesale distributor. 
3.Must be physically present at the establishment during normal business hours, 

except for time periods when absent due to illness, family illness or death, scheduled 
vacation, or other authorized absence. 

4.May serve as a designated representative for only one wholesale distributor at 
any one time. 

(e)A wholesale distributor must notify the department when a designated 
representative leaves the employ of the wholesale distributor. Such notice must be 
provided to the department within 10 business days after the last day of designated 
representative's employment with the wholesale distributor. 

(f)A wholesale distributor may not operate under a prescription drug wholesale 
distributor permit or an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit 
for more than 10 business days after the designated representative leaves the 
employ of the wholesale distributor, unless the wholesale distributor employs 
another designated representative and notifies the department within 10 business 
days of the identity of the new designated representative. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 108, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 14, 15, 52, ch. 
92-69; s. 187, ch. 97-264; ss. 30, 31, ch. 98-151; s. 172, ch. 99-397; s. 37, ch. 
2000-242; s. 20, ch. 2001-53; s. 138, ch. 2001-277; s. 38, ch. 2002-400; ss. 11, 



12, 13, 14, ch. 2003-155; s. 85, ch. 2004-5; s. 3, ch. 2004-328; S. 2, ch. 2005-248; 
ss. 2, 3, ch. 2006-92; s. 22, ch. 2007-6; ss. 2, 10, 11, 28, ch. 2008-207; s. 61, ch. 
2009-21; s. 17, ch. 2011-141; s. 67, ch. 2012-5. 
Note.—Subsections (1)-(7) former s. 499.01(2)-(8). 

499.Ol2OlAgency for Health Care Administration review and use of statute and 
rule violation or compliance data.—Notwithstanding any other provisions of law to 
the contrary, the Agency for Health Care Administration may not: 

(1)Review or use any violation or alleged violation of s. 499.0121(6) or s. 
499.01212, or any rules adopted under those sections, as a ground for denying or 
withholding any payment of a Medicaid reimbursement to a pharmacy licensed under 
chapter 465; or 

(2)Review or use compliance with s. 499.0121(6) or s. 499.01212, or any rules 
adopted under those sections, as the subject of any audit of Medicaid-related records 
held by a pharmacy licensed under chapter 465. 
History.—s. 4, ch. 2005-248; s. 12, ch. 2008-207. 

499.Ol2lStorage and handling of prescription drugs; recordkeeping.—The 
department shall adopt rules to implement this section as necessary to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare. Such rules shall include, but not be limited to, 
requirements for the storage and handling of prescription drugs and for the 
establishment and maintenance of prescription drug distribution records. 

(1)ESTABLISHMENTS.—An establishment at which prescription drugs are stored, 
warehoused, handled, held, offered, marketed, or displayed must: 

(a)Be of suitable size and construction to facilitate cleaning, maintenance, and 
proper operations; 

(b)Have storage areas designed to provide adequate lighting, ventilation, 
temperature, sanitation, humidity, space, equipment, and security conditions; 

(c)Have a quarantine area for storage of prescription drugs that are outdated, 
damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or adulterated, or that are in immediate or 
sealed, secondary containers that have been opened; 

(d)Be maintained in a clean and orderly condition; and 
(e)Be free from infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or vermin of any kind. 
(2)SECURITY.— 
(a)An establishment that is used for wholesale drug distribution must be secure 

from unauthorized entry. 
1.Access from outside the premises must be kept to a minimum and be well- 

controlled. 
2.The outside perimeter of the premises must be well-lighted. 
3.Entry into areas where prescription drugs are held must be limited to authorized 

personnel. 
(b)An establishment that is used for wholesale drug distribution must be equipped 

with: 
1.An alarm system to detect entry after hours; however, the department may 

exempt by rule establishments that only hold a permit as prescription drug wholesale 
distributor-brokers and establishments that only handle medical oxygen; and 

2.A security system that will provide suitable protection against theft and 
diversion. When appropriate, the security system must provide protection against 
theft or diversion that is facilitated or hidden by tampering with computers or 
electronic records. 

(c)Any vehicle that contains prescription drugs must be secure from unauthorized 
access to the prescription drugs in the vehicle. 

(3)STORAGE.—All prescription drugs shall be stored at appropriate temperatures 
and under appropriate conditions in accordance with requirements, if any, in the 
labeling of such drugs, or with requirements in the official compendium. 



(a)If no storage requirements are established for a prescription drug, the drug may 
be held at "controlled" room temperature, as defined in the official compendium, to 
help ensure that its identity, strength, quality, and purity are not adversely affected. 

(b)Appropriate manual, electromechanical, or electronic temperature and humidity 
recording equipment, devices, or logs must be used to document proper storage of 
prescription drugs. 

(c)The recordkeeping requirements in subsection (6) must be followed for all 
stored prescription drugs. 

(4)EXAMINATION OF MATERIALS AND RECORDS.— 
(a)Upon receipt, each outside shipping container must be visually examined for 

identity and to prevent the acceptance of contaminated prescription drugs that are 
otherwise unfit for distribution. This examination must be adequate to reveal 
container damage that would suggest possible contamination or other damage to the 
contents. 

(b)Each outgoing shipment must be carefully inspected for identity of the 
prescription drug products and to ensure that there is no delivery of prescription 
drugs that have expired or been damaged in storage or held under improper 
conditions. 

(c)The recordkeeping requirements in subsection (6) must be followed for all 
incoming and outgoing prescription drugs. 

(d)Upon receipt, a wholesale distributor must review records required under this 
section for the acquisition of prescription drugs for accuracy and completeness, 
considering the total facts and circumstances surrounding the transactions and the 
wholesale distributors involved. This includes authenticating each transaction listed 
on a pedigree paper, as defined in s. 499.003(37). 

(5)RETURNED, DAMAGED, OR OUTDATED PRESCRIPTION DRUGS.— 
(a)1.Prescription drugs that are outdated, damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or 

adulterated must be quarantined and physically separated from other prescription 
drugs until they are destroyed or returned to their supplier. A quarantine section 
must be separate and apart from other sections where prescription drugs are stored 
so that prescription drugs in this section are not confused with usable prescription 
drugs. 

2.Prescription drugs must be examined at least every 12 months, and drugs for 
which the expiration date has passed must be removed and quarantined. 

(b)Any prescription drugs of which the immediate or sealed outer containers or 
sealed secondary containers have been opened or used must be identified as such 
and must be quarantined and physically separated from other prescription drugs 
until they are destroyed or returned to the supplier. 

(c)If the conditions under which a prescription drug has been returned cast doubt 
on the drug's safety, identity, strength, quality, or purity, the drug must be 
destroyed or returned to the supplier, unless examination, testing, or other 
investigation proves that the drug meets appropriate standards of safety, identity, 
strength, quality, and purity. In determining whether the conditions under which a 

drug has been returned cast doubt on the drug's safety, identity, strength, quality, 
or purity, the wholesale distributor must consider, among other things, the 
conditions under which the drug has been held, stored, or shipped before or during 
its return and the conditions of the drug and its container, carton, or labeling, as a 

result of storage or shipping. 
(d)The recordkeeping requirements in subsection (6) must be followed for all 

outdated, damaged, deteriorated, misbranded, or adulterated prescription drugs. 
(6)RECORDKEEPING.—The department shall adopt rules that require keeping such 

records of prescription drugs as are necessary for the protection of the public health. 



(a)Wholesale distributors must establish and maintain inventories and records of 
all transactions regarding the receipt and distribution or other disposition of 
prescription drugs. These records must provide a complete audit trail from receipt to 
sale or other disposition, be readily retrievable for inspection, and include, at a 

minimum, the following information: 
1.The source of the drugs, including the name and principal address of the seller or 

transferor, and the address of the location from which the drugs were shipped; 
2.The name, principal address, and state license permit or registration number of 

the person authorized to purchase prescription drugs; 
3.The name, strength, dosage form, and quantity of the drugs received and 

distributed or disposed of; 
4.The dates of receipt and distribution or other disposition of the drugs; and 
5.Any financial documentation supporting the transaction. 
(b)Inventories and records must be made available for inspection and 

photocopying by authorized federal, state, or local officials for a period of 2 years 
following disposition of the drugs or 3 years after the creation of the records, 
whichever period is longer. 

(c)Records described in this section that are kept at the inspection site or that can 
be immediately retrieved by computer or other electronic means must be readily 
available for authorized inspection during the retention period. Records that are kept 
at a central location outside of this state and that are not electronically retrievable 
must be made available for inspection within 2 working days after a request by an 
authorized official of a federal, state, or local law enforcement agency. Records that 
are maintained at a central location within this state must be maintained at an 
establishment that is permitted pursuant to this part and must be readily available. 

(d)Each manufacturer or repackager of medical devices, over-the-counter drugs, 
or cosmetics must maintain records that include the name and principal address of 
the seller or transferor of the product, the address of the location from which the 
product was shipped, the date of the transaction, the name and quantity of the 
product involved, and the name and principal address of the person who purchased 
the product. 

(e)When pedigree papers are required by this part, a wholesale distributor must 
maintain the pedigree papers separate and distinct from other records required 
under this part. 

(7)PRESCRIPTION DRUG PURCHASE LIST.—Each wholesale distributor, except for 
a manufacturer, shall annually provide the department with a written list of all 
wholesale distributors and manufacturers from whom the wholesale distributor 
purchases prescription drugs. A wholesale distributor, except a manufacturer, shall 
notify the department not later than 10 days after any change to either list. Such 
portions of the information required pursuant to this subsection which are a trade 
secret, as defined in s. 812.081, shall be maintained by the department as trade 
secret information is required to be maintained under s. 499.051. 

(8) WRITTEN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.—Wholesale distributors must establish, 
maintain, and adhere to written policies and procedures, which must be followed for 
the receipt, security, storage, inventory, and distribution of prescription drugs, 
including policies and procedures for identifying, recording, and reporting losses or 
thefts, and for correcting all errors and inaccuracies in inventories. Wholesale 
distributors must include in their written policies and procedures: 

(a)A procedure whereby the oldest approved stock of a prescription drug product is 
distributed first. The procedure may permit deviation from this requirement, if the 
deviation is temporary and appropriate. 



(b)A procedure to be followed for handling recalls and withdrawals of prescription 
drugs. Such procedure must be adequate to deal with recalls and withdrawals due 
to: 

1.Any action initiated at the request of the Food and Drug Administration or any 
other federal, state, or local law enforcement or other government agency, including 
the department. 

2.Any voluntary action by the manufacturer or repackager to remove defective or 
potentially defective drugs from the market; or 

3.Any action undertaken to promote public health and safety by replacing existing 
merchandise with an improved product or new package design. 

(c)A procedure to ensure that wholesale distributors prepare for, protect against, 
and handle any crisis that affects security or operation of any facility if a strike, fire, 
flood, or other natural disaster, or a local, state, or national emergency, occurs. 

(d)A procedure to ensure that any outdated prescription drugs are segregated from 
other drugs and returned to the manufacturer or repackager or destroyed. This 
procedure must provide for written documentation of the disposition of outdated 
prescription drugs. This documentation must be maintained for 2 years after 
disposition of the outdated drugs. 

(9)RESPONSIBLE PERSONS.—Wholesale distributors must establish and maintain 
lists of officers, directors, managers, designated representatives, and other persons 
in charge of wholesale drug distribution, storage, and handling, including a 

description of their duties and a summary of their qualifications. 
(10)COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAW.—A wholesale 

distributor must operate in compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations. 

(a)A wholesale distributor must allow the department and authorized federal, 
state, and local officials to enter and inspect its premises and delivery vehicles, and 
to audit its records and written operating procedures, at reasonable times and in a 

reasonable manner, to the extent authorized by law. 
(b)A wholesale distributor that deals in controlled substances must register with 

the Drug Enforcement Administration and must comply with all applicable state, 
local, and federal laws. A wholesale distributor that distributes any substance 
controlled under chapter 893 must notify the department when registering with the 
Drug Enforcement Administration pursuant to that chapter and must provide the 
department with its DEA number. 

(11)SALVAGING AND REPROCESSING.—A wholesale distributor is subject to any 
applicable federal, state, or local laws or regulations that relate to prescription drug 
product salvaging or reprocessing. 

(12)SHIPPING AND TRANSPORTATION.—The person responsible for shipment and 
transportation of a prescription drug in a wholesale distribution may use a common 
carrier; its own vehicle or employee acting within the scope of employment if 
authorized under s. 499.03 for the possession of prescription drugs in this state; or, 
in the case of a prescription drug intended for domestic distribution, an independent 
contractor who must be the agent of the authorized seller or recipient responsible for 
shipping and transportation as set forth in a written contract between the parties. A 
person selling a prescription drug for export must obtain documentation, such as a 

validated airway bill, bill of lading, or other appropriate documentation that the 
prescription drug was exported. A person responsible for shipping or transporting 
prescription drugs is not required to maintain documentation from a common carrier 
that the designated recipient received the prescription drugs; however, the person 
must obtain such documentation from the common carrier and make it available to 
the department upon request of the department. 



(13)DUE DILIGENCE OF SUPPLIERS.—Prior to purchasing any prescription drugs 
from another wholesale distributor, a prescription drug wholesale distributor, an out- 
of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, or a prescription drug repackager 
must: 

(a)Enter an agreement with the selling wholesale distributor by which the selling 
wholesale distributor will indemnify the purchasing wholesale distributor for any loss 
caused to the purchasing wholesale distributor related to the purchase of drugs from 
the selling wholesale distributor which are determined to be counterfeit or to have 
been distributed in violation of any federal or state law governing the distribution of 
drugs. 

(b)Determine that the selling wholesale distributor has insurance coverage of not 
less than the greater of 1 percent of the amount of total dollar volume of the 
prescription drug sales reported to the department under s. 499.012(8)(g) or 
$500,000; however the coverage need not exceed $2 million. 

(c)Obtain information from the selling wholesale distributor, including the length of 
time the selling wholesale distributor has been licensed in this state, a copy of the 
selling wholesale distributor's licenses or permits, and background information 
concerning the ownership of the selling wholesale distributor, including the 
experience of the wholesale distributor in the wholesale distribution of prescription 
drugs. 

(d)Verify that the selling wholesale distributor's Florida permit is valid. 
(e)Inspect the selling wholesale distributor's licensed establishment to document 

that it has a policies and procedures manual relating to the distribution of drugs, the 
appropriate temperature controlled environment for drugs requiring temperature 
control, an alarm system, appropriate access restrictions, and procedures to ensure 
that records related to the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs are 
maintained as required by law: 

1.Before purchasing any drug from the wholesale distributor, and at least once 
each subsequent year; or 

2.Before purchasing any drug from the wholesale distributor, and each subsequent 
year obtain a complete copy of the most recent inspection report for the 
establishment which was prepared by the department or the regulatory authority 
responsible for wholesale distributors in the state in which the establishment is 
located. 

(14)DISTRIBUTION REPORTING.—Each prescription drug wholesale distributor, 
out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, retail pharmacy drug wholesale 
distributor, manufacturer, or repackager that engages in the wholesale distribution of 
controlled substances as defined in s. 893.02 shall submit a report to the department 
of its receipts and distributions of controlled substances listed in Schedule II, 
Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V as provided in s. 893.03. Wholesale 
distributor facilities located within this state shall report all transactions involving 
controlled substances, and wholesale distributor facilities located outside this state 
shall report all distributions to entities located in this state. If the prescription drug 
wholesale distributor, out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, retail 
pharmacy drug wholesale distributor, manufacturer, or repackager does not have 
any controlled substance distributions for the month, a report shall be sent indicating 
that no distributions occurred in the period. The report shall be submitted monthly 
by the 20th of the next month, in the electronic format used for controlled substance 
reporting to the Automation of Reports and Consolidated Orders System division of 
the federal Drug Enforcement Administration. Submission of electronic data must be 
made in a secured Internet environment that allows for manual or automated 
transmission. Upon successful transmission, an acknowledgment page must be 
displayed to confirm receipt. The report must contain the following information: 



(a)The federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number of the 
wholesale distributing location. 

(b)The federal Drug Enforcement Administration registration number of the entity 
to which the drugs are distributed or from which the drugs are received. 

(c)The transaction code that indicates the type of transaction. 
(d)The National Drug Code identifier of the product and the quantity distributed or 

received. 
(e)The Drug Enforcement Administration Form 222 number or Controlled 

Substance Ordering System Identifier on all Schedule II transactions. 
(f)The date of the transaction. 

The department must share the reported data with the Department of Law Enforcement and 
local law enforcement agencies upon request and must monitor purchasing to identify 
purchasing levels that are inconsistent with the purchasing entity's clinical needs. The 
Department of Law Enforcement shall investigate purchases at levels that are inconsistent with 
the purchasing entity's clinical needs to determine whether violations of chapter 893 have 
occurred. 

(15)DUE DILIGENCE OF PURCHASERS.— 
(a)Each prescription drug wholesale distributor, out-of-state prescription drug 

wholesale distributor, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor must establish 
and maintain policies and procedures to credential physicians licensed under chapter 
458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466 and pharmacies that purchase or 
otherwise receive from the wholesale distributor controlled substances listed in 
Schedule II or Schedule III as provided in s. 893.03. The prescription drug wholesale 
distributor, out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor, or retail pharmacy 
drug wholesale distributor shall maintain records of such credentialing and make the 
records available to the department upon request. Such credentialing must, at a 

minimum, include: 
l.A determination of the clinical nature of the receiving entity, including any 

specialty practice area. 
2.A review of the receiving entity's history of Schedule II and Schedule III 

controlled substance purchasing from the wholesale distributor. 
3.A determination that the receiving entity's Schedule II and Schedule III 

controlled substance purchasing history, if any, is consistent with and reasonable for 
that entity's clinical business needs. 

(b)A wholesale distributor must take reasonable measures to identify its 
customers, understand the normal and expected transactions conducted by those 
customers, and identify those transactions that are suspicious in nature. A wholesale 
distributor must establish internal policies and procedures for identifying suspicious 
orders and preventing suspicious transactions. A wholesale distributor must assess 
orders for greater than 5,000 unit doses of any one controlled substance in any one 
month to determine whether the purchase is reasonable. In making such 
assessments, a wholesale distributor may consider the purchasing entity's clinical 
business needs, location, and population served, in addition to other factors 
established in the distributor's policies and procedures. A wholesale distributor must 
report to the department any regulated transaction involving an extraordinary 
quantity of a listed chemical, an uncommon method of payment or delivery, or any 
other circumstance that the regulated person believes may indicate that the listed 
chemical will be used in violation of the law. The wholesale distributor shall maintain 
records that document the report submitted to the department in compliance with 
this paragraph. 



(c)A wholesale distributor may not distribute controlled substances to an entity if 
any criminal history record check for any person associated with that entity shows 
that the person has been convicted of, or entered a plea of guilty or nob contendere 
to, regardless of adjudication, a crime in any jurisdiction related to controlled 
substances, the practice of pharmacy, or the dispensing of medicinal drugs. 

(d)The department shall assess national data from the Automation of Reports and 
Consolidated Orders System of the federal Drug Enforcement Administration, 
excluding Florida data, and identify the national average of grams of hydrocodone, 
morphine, oxycodone, and methadone distributed per pharmacy registrant per 
month in the most recent year for which data is available. The department shall 
report the average for each of these drugs to the Governor, the President of the 
Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives by November 1, 2011. The 
department shall assess the data reported pursuant to subsection (14) and identify 
the statewide average of grams of each benzodiazepine distributed per community 
pharmacy per month. The department shall report the average for each 
benzodiazepine to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the 
House of Representatives by November 1, 2011. 
History.—s. 16, ch. 92-69; s. 32, ch. 98-151; ss. 38, 40, ch. 2000-242; ss. 15, 16, 
18, ch. 2003-155; s. 86, ch. 2004-5; s. 4, ch. 2004-328; s. 10, ch. 2004-387; s. 3, 
ch. 2005-248; s. 5, ch. 2006-310; s. 17, ch. 2007-6; s. 13, ch. 2008-207; s. 62, ch. 
2009-21; s. 3, ch. 2009-221; s. 40, ch. 2010-161; s. 18, ch. 2011-141. 
Note.—Paragraph (6)(d) former s. 499.013(4). 

499.0121 iDrug Wholesale Distributor Advisory Council.— 
(1)There is created the Drug Wholesale Distributor Advisory Council within the 

department. The council shall meet at least once each calendar quarter. Staff for the 
council shall be provided by the department. The council shall consist of 11 members 
who shall serve without compensation. The council shall elect a chairperson and a 

vice chairperson annually. 
(2)The Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation or his or her designee 

and the Secretary of Health Care Administration or her or his designee shall be 
members of the council. The Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation shall 
appoint nine additional members to the council who shall be appointed to a term of 4 
years each, as follows: 

(a)Three different persons each of whom is employed by a different prescription 
drug wholesale distributor licensed under this part which operates nationally and is a 

primary wholesale distributor, as defined in s. 499.003(47). 
(b)One person employed by a prescription drug wholesale distributor licensed 

under this part which is a secondary wholesale distributor, as defined in s. 
499.003(52). 

(c)One person employed by a retail pharmacy chain located in this state. 
(d)One person who is a member of the Board of Pharmacy and is a pharmacist 

licensed under chapter 465. 
(e)One person who is a physician licensed pursuant to chapter 458 or chapter 459. 
(f)One person who is an employee of a hospital licensed pursuant to chapter 395 

and is a pharmacist licensed pursuant to chapter 465. 
(g)One person who is an employee of a pharmaceutical manufacturer. 
(3)The council shall review this part and the rules adopted to administer this part 

annually, provide input to the department regarding all proposed rules to administer 
this part, make recommendations to the department to improve the protection of the 
prescription drugs and public health, make recommendations to improve 
coordination with other states' regulatory agencies and the federal government 
concerning the wholesale distribution of drugs, and make recommendations to 



minimize the impact of regulation of the wholesale distribution industry while 
ensuring protection of the public health. 
History.—s. 17, ch. 2003-155; s. 23, ch. 2007-6; s. 105, ch. 2008-6; s. 14, ch. 
2008-207; s. 41, ch. 2010-161; s. 4, ch. 2012-143. 

499.Ol2l2Pedigree paper.— 
(1)APPLICATION.—Each person who is engaged in the wholesale distribution of a 

prescription drug must, prior to or simultaneous with each wholesale distribution, 
provide a pedigree paper to the person who receives the drug. 

(2)FORMAT.—A pedigree paper must contain the following information: 
(a)For the wholesale distribution of a prescription drug within the normal 

distribution chain: 
1.The following statement: "This wholesale distributor purchased the specific unit 

of the prescription drug directly from the manufacturer." 
2.The manufacturer's national drug code identifier and the name and address of 

the wholesale distributor and the purchaser of the prescription drug. 
3.The name of the prescription drug as it appears on the label. 
4.The quantity, dosage form, and strength of the prescription drug. 

The wholesale distributor must also maintain and make available to the department, upon 
request, the point of origin of the prescription drugs, including intracompany transfers, the 
date of the shipment from the manufacturer to the wholesale distributor, the lot numbers of 
such drugs, and the invoice numbers from the manufacturer. 

(b)For all other wholesale distributions of prescription drugs: 
1.The quantity, dosage form, and strength of the prescription drugs. 
2.The lot numbers of the prescription drugs. 
3.The name and address of each owner of the prescription drug and his or her 

signature. 
4.Shipping information, including the name and address of each person certifying 

delivery or receipt of the prescription drug. 
5.An invoice number, a shipping document number, or another number uniquely 

identifying the transaction. 
6.A certification that the recipient wholesale distributor has authenticated the 

pedigree papers. 
7.The unique serialization of the prescription drug, if the manufacturer or 

repackager has uniquely serialized the individual prescription drug unit. 
8.The name, address, telephone number, and, if available, e-mail contact 

information of each wholesale distributor involved in the chain of the prescription 
drug's custody. 

When an affiliated group member obtains title to a prescription drug before distributing the 
prescription drug as the manufacturer under s. 499.003(31 )(e), information regarding the 
distribution between those affiliated group members may be omitted from a pedigree paper 
required under this paragraph for subsequent distributions of that prescription drug. 

(3)EXCEPTIONS.—A pedigree paper is not required for: 
(a)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by the manufacturer or by a 

third party logistics provider performing a wholesale distribution of a prescription 
drug for a manufacturer. 

(b)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by a freight forwarder within 
the authority of a freight forwarder permit. 

(c)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by a limited prescription drug 
veterinary wholesale distributor to a veterinarian. 



(d)The wholesale distribution of a compressed medical gas. 
(e)The wholesale distribution of a veterinary prescription drug. 
(f)A drop shipment, provided: 
1.The wholesale distributor delivers to the recipient of the prescription drug, within 

14 days after the shipment notification from the manufacturer, an invoice and the 
following sworn statement: "This wholesale distributor purchased the specific unit of 
the prescription drug listed on the invoice directly from the manufacturer, and the 
specific unit of prescription drug was shipped by the manufacturer directly to a 

person authorized by law to administer or dispense the legend drug, as defined in s. 
465.003, Florida Statutes, or a member of an affiliated group, with the exception of a 

repackager." The invoice must contain a unique cross-reference to the shipping 
document sent by the manufacturer to the recipient of the prescription drug. 

2.The manufacturer of the prescription drug shipped directly to the recipient 
provides and the recipient of the prescription drug acquires, within 14 days after 
receipt of the prescription drug, a shipping document from the manufacturer that 
contains, at a minimum: 

a.The name and address of the manufacturer, including the point of origin of the 
shipment, and the names and addresses of the wholesale distributor and the 
purchaser. 

b.The name of the prescription drug as it appears on the label. 
c.The quantity, dosage form, and strength of the prescription drug. 
d.The date of the shipment from the manufacturer. 
3.The wholesale distributor maintains and makes available to the department, 

upon request, the lot number of such drug if not contained in the shipping document 
acquired by the recipient. 

4.The wholesale distributor that takes title to, but not possession of, the 
prescription drug is not a member of the affiliated group that receives the 
prescription drug directly from the manufacturer. 

Failure of the manufacturer to provide, the recipient to acquire, or the wholesale distributor to 
deliver the documentation required under this paragraph shall constitute failure to acquire or 
deliver a pedigree paper under ss. 499.005(28) and 499.0051. Forgery by the manufacturer, the 
recipient, or the wholesale distributor of the documentation required to be acquired or 
delivered under this paragraph shall constitute forgery of a pedigree paper under s. 499.0051. 

(g)The wholesale distribution of a prescription drug by a warehouse within an 
affiliated group to a warehouse or retail pharmacy within its affiliated group, 
provided: 

1.Any affiliated group member that purchases or receives a prescription drug from 
outside the affiliated group must receive a pedigree paper if the prescription drug is 
distributed in or into this state and a pedigree paper is required under this section 
and must authenticate the documentation as required in s. 499.0121(4), regardless 
of whether the affiliated group member is directly subject to regulation under this 
part; and 

2.The affiliated group makes available, within 48 hours, to the department on 
request to one or more of its members all records related to the purchase or 
acquisition of prescription drugs by members of the affiliated group, regardless of the 
location where the records are stored, if the prescription drugs were distributed in or 
into this state. 

(h)The repackaging of prescription drugs by a repackager solely for distribution to 
its affiliated group members for the exclusive distribution to and among retail 
pharmacies that are members of the affiliated group to which the repackager is a 

member. 



1.The repackager must: 
a.For all repackaged prescription drugs distributed in or into this state, state in 

writing under oath with each distribution of a repackaged prescription drug to an 
affiliated group member warehouse or repackager: "All repackaged prescription 
drugs are purchased by the affiliated group directly from the manufacturer or from a 

prescription drug wholesale distributor that purchased the prescription drugs directly 
from the manufacturer." 

b.Purchase all prescription drugs it repackages: 
(I)Directly from the manufacturer; or 
(II)From a prescription drug wholesale distributor that purchased the prescription 

drugs directly from the manufacturer. 
c.Maintain records in accordance with this section to document that it purchased 

the prescription drugs directly from the manufacturer or that its prescription drug 
wholesale supplier purchased the prescription drugs directly from the manufacturer. 

2.All members of the affiliated group must provide, within 48 hours, to agents of 
the department on request to one or more of its members records of purchases by 
all members of the affiliated group of prescription drugs that have been repackaged, 
regardless of the location at which the records are stored or at which the repackager 
is located. 

(i)The wholesale distribution of prescription drugs within a medical convenience kit 
if: 

1.The medical convenience kit is assembled in an establishment that is registered 
with the United States Food and Drug Administration as a medical device 
manufacturer; 

2.The medical convenience kit manufacturer purchased the prescription drug 
directly from the manufacturer or from a wholesaler that purchased the prescription 
drug directly from the manufacturer; 

3.The medical convenience kit manufacturer complies with federal law for the 
distribution of the prescription drugs within the kit; and 

4.The drugs contained in the medical kit are: 
a.Intravenous solutions intended for the replenishment of fluids and electrolytes; 
b.Products intended to maintain the equilibrium of water and minerals in the body; 
c.Products intended for irrigation or reconstitution; 
d.Anesthetics; or 
e.Anticoagulants. 

This exemption does not apply to a convenience kit containing any controlled substance that 
appears in a schedule contained in or subject to chapter 893 or the federal Comprehensive 
Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970. 

History.—s. 15, ch. 2008-207; s. 4, ch. 2009-221; s. 24, ch. 2010-161. 
499.0 l5Registration of drugs, devices, and cosmetics; issuance of certificates of 

free sale.— 
(1)(a)Except for those persons exempted from the definition of manufacturer in s. 

499.003(31), any person who manufactures, packages, repackages, labels, or 
relabels a drug, device, or cosmetic in this state must register such drug, device, or 
cosmetic biennially with the department; pay a fee in accordance with the fee 
schedule provided by s. 499.041; and comply with this section. The registrant must 
list each separate and distinct drug, device, or cosmetic at the time of registration. 

(b)The department may not register any product that does not comply with the 
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, as amended, or Title 21 C.F.R. Registration of 
a product by the department does not mean that the product does in fact comply 
with all provisions of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, as amended. 



(2)The department may require the submission of a catalog and specimens of 
labels at the time of application for registration of drugs, devices, and cosmetics 
packaged and prepared in compliance with the federal act, which submission 
constitutes a satisfactory compliance for registration of the products. With respect to 
all other drugs, devices, and cosmetics, the department may require the submission 
of a catalog and specimens of labels at the time of application for registration, but 
the registration will not become effective until the department has examined and 
approved the label of the drug, device, or cosmetic product. This approval or denial 
must include written notification to the manufacturer. 

(3)Except for those persons exempted from the definition of manufacturer in s. 
499.003(31), a person may not sell any product that he or she has failed to register 
in conformity with this section. Such failure to register subjects such drug, device, or 
cosmetic product to seizure and condemnation as provided in s. 499.062, and 
subjects such person to the penalties and remedies provided in this part. 

(4)Unless a registration is renewed, it expires 2 years after the last day of the 
month in which it was issued. The department may issue a stop-sale notice or order 
against a person that is subject to the requirements of this section and that fails to 
comply with this section within 31 days after the date the registration expires. The 
notice or order shall prohibit such person from selling or causing to be sold any 
drugs, devices, or cosmetics covered by this part until he or she complies with the 
requirements of this section. 

(5)A product regulated under this section which is not included in the biennial 
registration may not be sold until it is registered and complies with this section. 

(6)The department may issue a certificate of free sale for any product that is 
required to be registered under this part. 

(7)A product registration is valid only for the company named on the registration 
and located at the address on the registration. A person whose product is registered 
by the department under this section must notify the department before any change 
in the name or address of the establishment to which the product is registered. If a 

person whose product is registered ceases conducting business, the person must 
notify the department before closing the business. 

(8)Notwithstanding any requirements set forth in this part, a manufacturer of 
medical devices that is registered with the federal Food and Drug Administration is 
exempt from this section and s. 499.041(6) if: 

(a)The manufacturer's medical devices are approved for marketing by, or listed 
with the federal Food and Drug Administration in accordance with federal law for 
commercial distribution; or 

(b)The manufacturer subcontracts with a manufacturer of medical devices to 
manufacture components of such devices. 

(9)However, the manufacturer must submit evidence of such registration, listing, 
or approval with its initial application for a permit to do business in this state, as 
required in s. 499.01 and any changes to such information previously submitted at 
the time of renewal of the permit. Evidence of approval, listing, and registration by 
the federal Food and Drug Administration must include: 

(a)For Class II devices, a copy of the premarket notification letter (510K); 
(b)For Class III devices, a Federal Drug Administration premarket approval 

number; 
(c)For a manufacturer who subcontracts with a manufacturer of medical devices to 

manufacture components of such devices, a Federal Drug Administration registration 
number; or 

(d)For a manufacturer of medical devices whose devices are exempt from 
premarket approval by the Federal Drug Administration, a Federal Drug 
Administration registration number. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; S. 110, ch. 83-218; S. 1, ch. 83-265; S. 3, ch. 84-115; 
ss. 20, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 587, ch. 97-103; s. 36, ch. 98-151; s. 1, ch. 99-165; s. 41, 
ch. 2000-242; s. 12, ch. 2000-326; s. 18, ch. 2001-63; s. 33, ch. 2001-89; s. 88, 
ch. 2004-5; s. 18, ch. 2008-207; s. 63, ch. 2009-21. 

499.O23New drugs; sale, manufacture, repackaging, distribution.—A person may 
not sell, offer for sale, hold for sale, manufacture, repackage, distribute, or give 
away any new drug unless an approved application has become effective under s. 
505 of the federal act or unless otherwise permitted by the Secretary of the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services for shipment in interstate 
commerce. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 26, 52, ch. 92-69. 

499.O24Drug product classification.—The department shall adopt rules to classify 
drug products intended for use by humans which the United States Food and Drug 
Administration has not classified in the federal act or the Code of Federal 
Regulations. 

(1)Drug products must be classified as proprietary, prescription, or investigational 
drugs. 

(2)If a product is distributed without required labeling, it is misbranded while held 
for sale. 

(3)Any product that falls under the definition of drug in s. 499.003(19) may be 
classified under the authority of this section. This section does not subject portable 
emergency oxygen inhalators to classification; however, this section does not 
exempt any person from ss. 499.01 and 499.015. 

(4)Any product classified under the authority of this section reverts to the federal 
classification, if different, upon the federal regulation or act becoming effective. 

(5)The department may by rule reclassify drugs subject to this part when such 
classification action is necessary to protect the public health. 

(6)The department may adopt rules that exempt from any labeling or packaging 
requirements of this part drugs classified under this section if those requirements are 
not necessary to protect the public health. 
History.—s. 9, ch. 88-159; s. 1, ch. 89-296; ss. 27, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 589, ch. 97- 
103; s. 42, ch. 2000-242; s. 13, ch. 2000-326; s. 61, ch. 2006-1; s. 106, ch. 2008- 
6; s. 19, ch. 2008-207; s. 5, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O25Drug products in finished, solid, oral dosage form; identification 
requirements.— 

(1)A drug product in finished, solid, oral dosage form for which a prescription is 
required by federal or state law may not be manufactured or distributed within this 
state unless it is clearly and prominently marked or imprinted with an individual 
symbol, number, company name, words, letters, marking, or national drug code, or 
any combination thereof, that identifies the drug product and the manufacturer or 
distributor of the drug product which has the ability to respond to requests for 
information regarding the drug product. 

(2)A manufacturer or distributor must make available to the department on 
request descriptive material that identifies each current imprint used by the 
manufacturer. 

(3)The department, upon application by a manufacturer, may exempt a particular 
drug product from the requirements of subsection (1) on the ground that imprinting 
is not feasible because of the size, texture, or other unique characteristic of the drug 
product. 

(4)This section does not apply to drug products compounded by a pharmacist 
licensed under chapter 465 in a pharmacy operating under a permit issued by the 
Board of Pharmacy. 

(5)The department shall adopt rules for implementing this section. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 22, ch. 86-256; ss. 28, 52, ch. 92- 
69; S. 18, ch. 2000-326. 

499.O28Drug samples or complimentary drugs; starter packs; permits to 
distribute.— 

(1)As used in this section, the term: 
(a)"Drug sample," or "complimentary drug," means a human prescription drug that 

is labeled "sample," "not to be sold," "complimentary," or other words to that effect, 
that is provided as a courtesy, that is not intended to be sold, and that is intended to 
promote the sale of the drug. 

(b)"Starter packs," also known as "stock samples," "trade packages," "initial dose 
packs," or "starter stocks," means human prescription drugs that are generally 
distributed without charge by manufacturers or distributors to pharmacies to be 
placed in stock and sold at retail. Although starter packs are generally given without 
charge to the pharmacy, they are not intended to be a free sample to the consumer 
nor are they labeled as such. Starter packs are subject to regulation as prescription 
drugs under the Florida Drug and Cosmetic Act in the same manner as stock 
shipments of prescription drugs. Starter packs are not drug samples. 

(2)A person may not sell, purchase, or trade or offer to sell, purchase, or trade any 
drug sample. An officer or executive of a drug manufacturer or distributor is not 
subject to criminal liability solely because of a sale, purchase, trade, or offer to sell, 
purchase, or trade of a drug sample in violation of this subsection by other 
employees of the manufacturer or distributor. 

(3)Except as provided in this section, a representative of a drug manufacturer or 
distributor may not distribute any drug sample. 

(a)The manufacturer or distributor of a human prescription drug may, in 
accordance with this paragraph, distribute drug samples by mail or common carrier 
to practitioners licensed to prescribe such drugs or, at the request of a licensed 
practitioner, to pharmacies of hospitals or to pharmacies of other health care 
entities. Such a distribution of drug samples may only be made: 

1.In response to a written request for drug samples made on a form that meets 
the requirements of paragraph (b); and 

2.Under a system that requires the recipient of the drug sample to execute a 

written receipt for the drug sample upon its delivery and to return the receipt to the 
manufacturer or distributor. 

(b)A written request for a drug sample that is required by this section must 
contain: 

1.The name, address, professional designation, and signature of the practitioner 
who makes the request; 

2.The name, strength, and dosage form of the drug sample requested and the 
quantity requested; 

3.The name of the manufacturer of the drug sample requested; and 
4.The date of the request. 
(c)Each drug manufacturer or distributor that makes distributions by mail or 

common carrier under this paragraph must maintain, for a period of 3 years, the 
request forms submitted for such distributions and the receipts submitted for such 
distributions and must maintain a record of distributions of drug samples which 
identifies the drugs distributed and the recipients of the distributions. Forms, 
receipts, and records required to be maintained under this paragraph must be made 
available by the drug manufacturer or distributor to the department for its review 
and inspection. 

(d)The manufacturer or distributor of a drug subject to paragraph (1)(a) may, by 
means other than mail or common carrier, distribute drug samples only if the 



manufacturer or distributor makes the distributions in accordance with paragraph (e) 
and carries out the activities described in subsections (4)-(9). 

(e)Drug samples may only be distributed: 
1.To a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe such drugs if the practitioner 

makes a written request for the drug samples; or 
2.At the written request of such a practitioner, to pharmacies of hospitals or to 

pharmacies of other health care entities. The written request for drug samples must 
be made on a form that contains the practitioner's name, address, and professional 
designation, the name, strength, and dosage form of the drug sample requested, the 
quantity of drug samples requested, the name of the manufacturer or distributor of 
the drug sample, the date of the request, and the signature of the practitioner that 
makes the request. 

(4)A drug manufacturer or distributor must store drug samples under the 
conditions described on their labels that will maintain the stability, integrity, and 
effectiveness of the drug samples and will assure that the drug samples remain free 
of contamination, deterioration, and adulteration. 

(5)A drug manufacturer or distributor must conduct, at least annually, a complete 
and accurate inventory of all drug samples in the possession of representatives of 
the manufacturer or distributor. A drug manufacturer or distributor must maintain 
lists of the names and addresses of each of its representatives who distribute drug 
samples and of the sites where drug samples are stored. A drug manufacturer or 
distributor must maintain for at least 3 years records of all drug samples distributed, 
destroyed, or returned to the manufacturer or distributor, of all inventories 
maintained under this subsection, of all thefts or significant losses of drug samples, 
and of all requests made under 'subparagraph 1. for drug samples. The drug 
manufacturer or distributor must make available to the department upon request any 
record or list maintained under this subsection. The department shall provide to the 
Department of Business and Professional Regulation the names of those practitioners 
who have received an excessive or inappropriate quantity of such drugs. 

(6)A drug manufacturer or distributor must notify the department of any significant 
loss of drug samples and any known theft of drug samples. 

(7)A drug manufacturer or distributor must report to the department any 
conviction of itself or of its assigns, agents, employees, or representatives for a 

violation of s. 503(c)(1) of the federal act or of this part because of the sale, 
purchase, or trade of a drug sample or the offer to sell, purchase, or trade a drug 
sample. 

(8)Drug manufacturers or distributors must provide to the department the name 
and telephone number of the individual responsible for responding to a request for 
information regarding drug samples. 

(9)All out-of-date drug samples must be returned to the manufacturer or 
distributor of that drug sample. 

(1O)A manufacturer or distributor may not directly or through its agents, 
employees, or independent contractors, hold, distribute, or otherwise dispose of any 
complimentary drugs or drug samples in this state without first obtaining a 

complimentary drug distributor permit pursuant to this section. 
(11)(a)Application for a permit by a manufacturer or distributor to hold, distribute, 

or otherwise dispose of drugs pursuant to this section must be made on a form 
prescribed by the department and must be accompanied by an application fee in an 
amount not exceeding $250 per year, as is determined by the department. 

(b)A permit issued under this section expires 2 years after the date of issuance, 
unless sooner suspended or revoked. 

(c)A permit is renewable biennially upon the filing of an application for renewal and 
the payment of a renewal fee of not more than $250 per year, as determined by the 



department, if the applicant meets the requirements established by this section and 
the rules adopted under this section. 

(12)The department may suspend or revoke a permit issued under this section, 
after giving notice and an opportunity to be heard pursuant to chapter 120, when: 

(a)Such permit was obtained by misrepresentation or fraud or through a mistake 
of the department. 

(b)The holder of the permit has distributed or disposed of any prescription drug, 
directly or through its agents, employees, or independent contractors, to any person 
not authorized to possess such drug. 

(c)The holder of the permit, or its agents, employees, or independent contractors, 
has distributed or possessed any prescription drug except in the usual course of its 
business. 

(d)The holder of the permit, or its agents, employees, or independent contractors, 
has distributed any prescription drug that is misbranded or adulterated under this 
part. 

(e)The holder of the permit, or its agents, employees, or independent contractors, 
has distributed any prescription drug without written request, when a written request 
is required by this section. 

(f)The holder of the permit has in its employ, or uses as agent or independent 
contractor for the purpose of distributing or disposing of drugs, any person who has: 

1.Violated the requirements of this section or any rule adopted under this section. 
2.Been convicted in any of the courts of this state, the United States, or any other 

state of a felony or any other crime involving moral turpitude or involving those 
drugs named or described in chapter 893. 

(13)The department may, pursuant to chapter 120, impose an administrative fine, 
not to exceed $5,000 per violation per day, for the violation of this section or rules 
adopted under this section. Each day such violation continues constitutes a separate 
violation, and each such separate violation is subject to a separate fine. All amounts 
collected under this section shall be deposited into the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. In determining the amount of fine to be levied for a violation, the following 
factors must be considered: 

(a)The severity of the violation. 
(b)Any actions taken by the permittee to correct the violation or to remedy 

complaints. 
(c)Any previous violations. 
(14)Chapter 893 applies to all drug samples that are controlled substances. 
(15)A person may not possess a prescription drug sample unless: 
(a)The drug sample was prescribed to her or him as evidenced by the label 

required in s. 465.0276(5). 
(b)She or he is the employee of a complimentary drug distributor that holds a 

permit issued under this part. 
(c)She or he is a person to whom prescription drug samples may be distributed 

pursuant to this section. 
(d)He or she is an officer or employee of a federal, state, or local government 

acting within the scope of his or her employment. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 114, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 8, ch. 84-115; 
s. 23, ch. 86-256; ss. 29, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 198, ch. 94-218; s. 23, ch. 97-98; s. 
590, ch. 97-103; s. 39, ch. 99-397; s. 20, ch. 2008-207; s. 12, ch. 2012-143. 
'Note.—Subsection (5) does not contain subparagraphs. 

499.O29Cancer Drug Donation Program.— 
(1)This section may be cited as the "Cancer Drug Donation Program Act." 



(2)There is created a Cancer Drug Donation Program within the department for the 
purpose of authorizing and facilitating the donation of cancer drugs and supplies to 
eligible patients. 

(3)As used in this section: 
(a)"Cancer drug" means a prescription drug that has been approved under s. 505 

of the federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and is used to treat cancer or its side 
effects or is used to treat the side effects of a prescription drug used to treat cancer 
or its side effects. "Cancer drug" does not include a substance listed in Schedule II, 
Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V of s. 893.03. 

(b)"Closed drug delivery system" means a system in which the actual control of 
the unit-dose medication package is maintained by the facility rather than by the 
individual patient. 

(c)"Donor" means a patient or patient representative who donates cancer drugs or 
supplies needed to administer cancer drugs that have been maintained within a 

closed drug delivery system; health care facilities, nursing homes, hospices, or 
hospitals with closed drug delivery systems; or pharmacies, drug manufacturers, 
medical device manufacturers or suppliers, or wholesalers of drugs or supplies, in 
accordance with this section. "Donor" includes a physician licensed under chapter 
458 or chapter 459 who receives cancer drugs or supplies directly from a drug 
manufacturer, wholesale distributor, or pharmacy. 

(d)"Eligible patient" means a person who the department determines is eligible to 
receive cancer drugs from the program. 

(e)"Participant facility" means a class II hospital pharmacy that has elected to 
participate in the program and that accepts donated cancer drugs and supplies under 
the rules adopted by the department for the program. 

(f)"Prescribing practitioner" means a physician licensed under chapter 458 or 
chapter 459 or any other medical professional with authority under state law to 
prescribe cancer medication. 

(g)"Program" means the Cancer Drug Donation Program created by this section. 
(h)"Supplies" means any supplies used in the administration of a cancer drug. 
(4)Any donor may donate cancer drugs or supplies to a participant facility that 

elects to participate in the program and meets criteria established by the department 
for such participation. Cancer drugs or supplies may not be donated to a specific 
cancer patient, and donated drugs or supplies may not be resold by the program. 
Cancer drugs billed to and paid for by Medicaid in long-term care facilities that are 
eligible for return to stock under federal Medicaid regulations shall be credited to 
Medicaid and are not eligible for donation under the program. A participant facility 
may provide dispensing and consulting services to individuals who are not patients of 
the hospital. 

(5)The cancer drugs or supplies donated to the program may be prescribed only by 
a prescribing practitioner for use by an eligible patient and may be dispensed only by 
a pharmacist. 

(6)(a)A cancer drug may only be accepted or dispensed under the program if the 
drug is in its original, unopened, sealed container, or in a tamper-evident unit-dose 
packaging, except that a cancer drug packaged in single-unit doses may be accepted 
and dispensed if the outside packaging is opened but the single-unit-dose packaging 
is unopened with tamper-resistant packaging intact. 

(b)A cancer drug may not be accepted or dispensed under the program if the drug 
bears an expiration date that is less than 6 months after the date the drug was 
donated or if the drug appears to have been tampered with or mislabeled as 
determined in paragraph (c). 



(c)Prior to being dispensed to an eligible patient, the cancer drug or supplies 
donated under the program shall be inspected by a pharmacist to determine that the 
drug and supplies do not appear to have been tampered with or mislabeled. 

(d)A dispenser of donated cancer drugs or supplies may not submit a claim or 
otherwise seek reimbursement from any public or private third-party payor for 
donated cancer drugs or supplies dispensed to any patient under the program, and a 

public or private third-party payor is not required to provide reimbursement to a 

dispenser for donated cancer drugs or supplies dispensed to any patient under the 
program. 

(7)(a)A donation of cancer drugs or supplies shall be made only at a participant 
facility. A participant facility may decline to accept a donation. A participant facility 
that accepts donated cancer drugs or supplies under the program shall comply with 
all applicable provisions of state and federal law relating to the storage and 
dispensing of the donated cancer drugs or supplies. 

(b)A participant facility that voluntarily takes part in the program may charge a 

handling fee sufficient to cover the cost of preparation and dispensing of cancer 
drugs or supplies under the program. The fee shall be established in rules adopted 
by the department. 

(8)The department, upon the recommendation of the Board of Pharmacy, shall 
adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this section. Initial rules under this section 
shall be adopted no later than 90 days after the effective date of this act. The rules 
shall include, but not be limited to: 

(a)Eligibility criteria, including a method to determine priority of eligible patients 
under the program. 

(b)Standards and procedures for participant facilities that accept, store, distribute, 
or dispense donated cancer drugs or supplies. 

(c)Necessary forms for administration of the program, including, but not limited to, 
forms for use by entities that donate, accept, distribute, or dispense cancer drugs or 
supplies under the program. 

(d)The maximum handling fee that may be charged by a participant facility that 
accepts and distributes or dispenses donated cancer drugs or supplies. 

(e)Categories of cancer drugs and supplies that the program will accept for 
dispensing; however, the department may exclude any drug based on its therapeutic 
effectiveness or high potential for abuse or diversion. 

(f)Maintenance and distribution of the participant facility registry established in 
subsection (10). 

(9)A person who is eligible to receive cancer drugs or supplies under the state 
Medicaid program or under any other prescription drug program funded in whole or 
in part by the state, by any other prescription drug program funded in whole or in 
part by the Federal Government, or by any other prescription drug program offered 
by a third-party insurer, unless benefits have been exhausted, or a certain cancer 
drug or supply is not covered by the prescription drug program, is ineligible to 
participate in the program created under this section. 

(10)The department shall establish and maintain a participant facility registry for 
the program. The participant facility registry shall include the participant facility's 
name, address, and telephone number. The department shall make the participant 
facility registry available on the department's website to any donor wishing to donate 
cancer drugs or supplies to the program. The department's website shall also contain 
links to cancer drug manufacturers that offer drug assistance programs or free 
medication. 

(11)Any donor of cancer drugs or supplies, or any participant in the program, who 
exercises reasonable care in donating, accepting, distributing, or dispensing cancer 
drugs or supplies under the program and the rules adopted under this section shall 



be immune from civil or criminal liability and from professional disciplinary action of 
any kind for any injury, death, or loss to person or property relating to such 
activities. 

(12)A pharmaceutical manufacturer is not liable for any claim or injury arising from 
the transfer of any cancer drug under this section, including, but not limited to, 
liability for failure to transfer or communicate product or consumer information 
regarding the transferred drug, as well as the expiration date of the transferred drug. 

(13)If any conflict exists between the provisions in this section and the provisions 
in this chapter or chapter 465, the provisions in this section shall control the 
operation of the Cancer Drug Donation Program. 
History.—s. 1, ch. 2006-310; s. 122, ch. 2007-5; ss. 2, 21, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O3Possession of certain drugs without prescriptions unlawful; exemptions and 
exceptions.— 

(1)A person may not possess, or possess with intent to sell, dispense, or deliver, 
any habit-forming, toxic, harmful, or new drug subject to s. 499.003(33), or 
prescription drug as defined in s. 499.003(43), unless the possession of the drug has 
been obtained by a valid prescription of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe 
the drug. However, this section does not apply to the delivery of such drugs to 
persons included in any of the classes named in this subsection, or to the agents or 
employees of such persons, for use in the usual course of their businesses or 
practices or in the performance of their official duties, as the case may be; nor does 
this section apply to the possession of such drugs by those persons or their agents or 
employees for such use: 

(a)A licensed pharmacist or any person under the licensed pharmacist's 
supervision while acting within the scope of the licensed pharmacist's practice; 

(b)A licensed practitioner authorized by law to prescribe prescription drugs or any 
person under the licensed practitioner's supervision while acting within the scope of 
the licensed practitioner's practice; 

(c)A qualified person who uses prescription drugs for lawful research, teaching, or 
testing, and not for resale; 

(d)A licensed hospital or other institution that procures such drugs for lawful 
administration or dispensing by practitioners; 

(e)An officer or employee of a federal, state, or local government; or 
(f)A person that holds a valid permit issued by the department pursuant to this 

part which authorizes that person to possess prescription drugs. 
(2)The possession of a drug under subsection (1) by any person not exempted 

under this section, which drug is not properly labeled to indicate that possession is 
by a valid prescription of a practitioner licensed by law to prescribe such drug, is 
prima facie evidence that such possession is unlawful. 

(3)Violation of subsection (1) is a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable 
as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, except that possession with the intent to 
sell, dispense, or deliver is a third degree felony, punishable as provided in s. 
775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(4)The department may adopt rules regarding persons engaged in lawful teaching, 
research, or testing who possess prescription drugs and may issue letters of 
exemption to facilitate the lawful possession of prescription drugs under this section. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 5, ch. 84-115; s. 75, ch. 87-243; ss. 
30, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 37, ch. 98-151; s. 43, ch. 2000-242; s. 14, ch. 2000-326; s. 
19, ch. 2001-63; s. 89, ch. 2004-5; s. 22, ch. 2008-207; s. 42, ch. 2010-161. 

499.O32Phenylalanine; prescription required.—Phenylalanine restricted formula is 
declared to be a prescription drug and may be dispensed only upon the prescription 
of a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe prescription drugs. 



History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 31, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 23, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O33Ephedrine; prescription required.—Ephedrine is declared to be a 

prescription drug. 
(1)Except as provided in subsection (2), any product that contains any quantity of 

ephedrine, a salt of ephedrine, an optical isomer of ephedrine, or a salt of an optical 
isomer of ephedrine may be dispensed only upon the prescription of a duly licensed 
practitioner authorized by the laws of the state to prescribe prescription drugs. 

(2)A product containing ephedrine described in paragraphs (a)-(e) is exempt from 
subsection (1) if it may lawfully be sold over the counter without a prescription under 
the federal act; is labeled and marketed in a manner consistent with the pertinent 
United States Food and Drug Administration Over-the-Counter Tentative Final or 
Final Monograph; and is manufactured and distributed for legitimate medicinal use in 
a manner that reduces or eliminates the likelihood of abuse, when considered in the 
context with: the package sizes and the manner of packaging of the drug product; 
the name and labeling of the product; the manner of distribution, advertising, and 
promotion of the product; the duration, scope, health significance, and societal cost 
of abuse of the particular product; the need to provide medically important 
ephedrine-containing therapies to the public for United States Food and Drug 
Administration approved indications on an unrestricted, over-the-counter basis; and 
other facts as may be relevant to and consistent with public health and safety. 

(a)Solid oral dosage forms that combine active ingredients in the following ranges 
for each dosage unit: 

1.Theophylline (100-130mg), ephedrine (12.5-24mg). 
2.Theophylline (60-100mg), ephedrine (12.5-24mg), guaifenesin (200-400mg). 
3.Ephedrine (12.5-25mg), guaifenesin (200-400mg). 
4.Phenobarbital (not greater than 8mg) in combination with the ingredients of 

subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. 
(b)Liquid oral dosage forms that combine active ingredients in the following ranges 

for each (5m1) dose: 
1.Theophylline (not greater than 45mg), ephedrine (not greater than 36mg), 

guaifenesin (not greater than 100mg), phenobarbital (not greater than 12mg). 
2.Phenylephrine (not greater than 5mg), ephedrine (not greater than 5mg), 

chlorpheniramine (not greater than 2mg), dextromethorphan (not greater than 
10mg), ammonium chloride (not greater than 40mg), ipecac fluid extract (not 
greater than 0.005m1). 

(c)Anorectal preparations containing less than 5 percent ephedrine. 
(d)Nasal decongestant compounds, mixtures, or preparations containing 0.5 

percent or less ephedrine. 
(e)Any drug product containing ephedrine that is marketed pursuant to an 

approved new drug application or legal equivalent under the federal act. 
(3)The department may implement this section by rule. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 94-309; s. 1, ch. 95-415; s. 61, ch. 2003-1; s. 24, ch. 2008-207. 
499.O35Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO); labeling and advertising.— 
(1)Dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) not approved for drug use must be clearly marked 

in at least 12-point boldfaced type: "May be unsafe. Not approved for human use." 
(2)All advertisements for the sale of dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO) not approved for 

drug use must contain, within the advertisement and in bold lettering, the following 
statement: "Warning. May be unsafe. Not approved for human use." 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 26, ch. 82-402; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 32, 52, ch. 92- 
69; ss. 1, 5, 8, ch. 94-309. 

499.O39Sale, distribution, or transfer of harmful chemical substances; penalties; 
authority for enforcement.—It is unlawful for a person to sell, deliver, or give to a 



person under the age of 18 years any compound, liquid, or chemical containing 
toluol, hexane, trichloroethylene, acetone, toluene, ethyl acetate, methyl ethyl 
ketone, trichloroethane, isopropanol, methyl isobutyl ketone, ethylene glycol 
monomethyl ether acetate, cyclohexanone, nitrous oxide, diethyl ether, alkyl nitrites 
(butyl nitrite), or any similar substance for the purpose of inducing by breathing, 
inhaling, or ingesting a condition of intoxication or which is intended to distort or 
disturb the auditory, visual, or other physical or mental processes. 

(1)On the first violation of this section, the department may issue a warning 
according to s. 499.002(5), if the violation has not caused temporary or permanent 
physical or mental injury to the user. 

(2)If any violation of this section has caused temporary or permanent physical or 
mental injury to the user, the department may, pursuant to chapter 120, impose 
fines according to s. 499.066 and may report any violation to the appropriate state 
attorney for prosecution. 

(3)The department shall adopt rules to implement this section. 
History.—s. 12, ch. 86-133; s. 1, ch. 89-296; ss. 33, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 239, ch. 99- 
8; s. 25, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O4Fee authority.—The department may collect fees for all drug, device, and 
cosmetic applications, permits, product registrations, and free-sale certificates. The 
total amount of fees collected from all permits, applications, product registrations, 
and free-sale certificates must be adequate to fund the expenses incurred by the 
department in carrying out this part. The department shall, by rule, establish a 

schedule of fees that are within the ranges provided in this section and shall adjust 
those fees from time to time based on the costs associated with administering this 
part. The fees are payable to the department to be deposited into the Professional 
Regulation Trust Fund for the sole purpose of carrying out this part. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 115, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 34, 52, ch. 92- 
69; s. 15, ch. 2000-326; s. 26, ch. 2008-207; s. 13, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O4lSchedule of fees for drug, device, and cosmetic applications and permits, 
product registrations, and free-sale certificates.— 

(1)The department shall assess applicants requiring a manufacturing permit an 
annual fee within the ranges established in this section for the specific type of 
manufacturer. 

(a)The fee for a prescription drug manufacturer permit may not be less than $500 
or more than $750 annually. 

(b)The fee for a device manufacturer permit may not be less than $500 or more 
than $600 annually. 

(c)The fee for a cosmetic manufacturer permit may not be less than $250 or more 
than $400 annually. 

(d)The fee for an over-the-counter drug manufacturer permit may not be less than 
$300 or more than $400 annually. 

(e)The fee for a compressed medical gas manufacturer permit may not be less 
than $400 or more than $500 annually. 

(f)The fee for a prescription drug repackager permit may not be less than $500 or 
more than $750 annually. 

(g)A manufacturer may not be required to pay more than one fee per 
establishment to obtain an additional manufacturing permit, but each manufacturer 
must pay the highest fee applicable to his or her operation in each establishment. 

(2)The department shall assess an applicant that is required to have a wholesaling 
permit an annual fee within the ranges established in this section for the specific 
type of wholesaling. 

(a)The fee for a prescription drug wholesale distributor permit may not be less 
than $300 or more than $800 annually. 



(b)The fee for a compressed medical gas wholesale distributor permit may not be 
less than $200 or more than $300 annually. 

(c)The fee for an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale distributor permit may 
not be less than $300 or more than $800 annually. 

(d)The fee for a nonresident prescription drug manufacturer permit may not be 
less than $300 or more than $500 annually. 

(e)The fee for a retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permit may not be less 
than $35 or more than $50 annually. 

(f)The fee for a freight forwarder permit may not be less than $200 or more than 
$300 annually. 

(g)The fee for a veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor permit may not 
be less than $300 or more than $500 annually. 

(h)The fee for a limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor permit 
may not be less than $300 or more than $500 annually. 

(i)The fee for a third party logistics provider permit may not be less than $200 or 
more than $300 annually. 

(3)The department shall assess an applicant that is required to have a retail 
establishment permit an annual fee within the ranges established in this section for 
the specific type of retail establishment. 

(a)The fee for a veterinary prescription drug retail establishment permit may not 
be less than $200 or more than $300 annually. 

(b)The fee for a medical oxygen retail establishment permit may not be less than 
$200 or more than $300 annually. 

(c)The fee for a health care clinic establishment permit may not be less than $125 
or more than $250 annually. 

(4)The department shall assess an applicant that is required to have a restricted 
prescription drug distributor permit an annual fee of not less than $200 or more than 
$300. 

(5)In addition to the fee charged for a permit required by this part, the department 
shall assess applicants an initial application fee of $150 for each new permit issued 
by the department which requires an onsite inspection. 

(6)A person that is required to register drugs, devices, or cosmetic products under 
s. 499.015 shall pay an annual product registration fee of not less than $5 or more 
than $15 for each separate and distinct product in package form. The registration fee 
is in addition to the fee charged for a free-sale certificate. 

(7)The department shall assess an applicant that requests a free-sale certificate a 

fee of $25. A fee of $2 will be charged for each signature copy of a free-sale 
certificate that is obtained at the same time the free-sale certificate is issued. 

(8)The department shall assess an out-of-state prescription drug wholesale 
distributor applicant or permittee an onsite inspection fee of not less than $1,000 or 
more than $3,000 annually, to be based on the actual cost of the inspection if an 
onsite inspection is performed by agents of the department. 

(9)The department shall assess each person applying for certification as a 

designated representative a fee of $150, plus the cost of processing the criminal 
history record check. 

(10)The department shall assess other fees as provided in this part. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 116, ch. 83-218; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 10, 14, ch. 88- 
159; s. 4, ch. 89-296; ss. 35, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 591, ch. 97-103; s. 16, ch. 2000- 
326; s. 20, ch. 2003-155; s. 5, ch. 2004-328; s. 5, ch. 2006-92; s. 27, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O5Rules.— 
(1)The department shall adopt rules to implement and enforce this part with 

respect to: 



(a)The definition of terms used in this part, and used in the rules adopted under 
this part, when the use of the term is not its usual and ordinary meaning. 

(b)Labeling requirements for drugs, devices, and cosmetics. 
(c)The establishment of fees authorized in this part. 
(d)The identification of permits that require an initial application and onsite 

inspection or other prerequisites for permitting which demonstrate that the 
establishment and person are in compliance with the requirements of this part. 

(e)The application processes and forms for product registration. 
(f)Procedures for requesting and issuing certificates of free sale. 
(g)Inspections and investigations conducted under s. 499.051, and the 

identification of information claimed to be a trade secret and exempt from the public 
records law as provided in s. 499.051(7). 

(h)The establishment of a range of penalties, as provided in s. 499.066; 
requirements for notifying persons of the potential impact of a violation of this part; 
and a process for the uncontested settlement of alleged violations. 

(i)Additional conditions that qualify as an emergency medical reason under s. 
499.003(54)(b)2. 

(j)Procedures and forms relating to the pedigree paper requirement of s. 
499.01212. 

(k)The protection of the public health, safety, and welfare regarding good 
manufacturing practices that manufacturers and repackagers must follow to ensure 
the safety of the products. 

(l)Information required from each retail establishment pursuant to s. 499.012(3), 
including requirements for prescriptions or orders. 

(m)The recordkeeping, storage, and handling with respect to each of the 
distributions of prescription drugs specified in s. 499.003(54)(a)-(d). 

(n)Alternatives to compliance with s. 499.01212 for a prescription drug in the 
inventory of a permitted prescription drug wholesale distributor as of June 30, 2006, 
and the return of a prescription drug purchased prior to July 1, 2006. The 
department may specify time limits for such alternatives. 

(0) Wholesale distributor reporting requirements of s. 499.0121(14). 
(p)Wholesale distributor credentialing and distribution requirements of s. 

499.0121(15). 
(2) With respect to products in interstate commerce, those rules must not be 

inconsistent with rules and regulations of federal agencies unless specifically 
otherwise directed by the Legislature. 

(3)The department shall adopt rules regulating recordkeeping for and the storage, 
handling, and distribution of medical devices and over-the-counter drugs to protect 
the public from adulterated products. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 6, ch. 84-115; 5. 88, ch. 85-81; 5. 

4, ch. 86-133; ss. 17, 18, 36, ch. 92-69; ss. 2, 5, 8, ch. 94-309; ss. 31, 34, 38, ch. 
98-151; s. 172, ch. 99-397; ss. 39, 44, ch. 2000-242; s. 20, ch. 2001-63; s. 32, ch. 
2001-89; ss. 13, 14, 18, ch. 2003-155; ss. 87, 90, ch. 2004-5; s. 28, ch. 2008-207; 
s. 43, ch. 2010-161; s. 19, ch. 2011-141. 
Note.—Paragraph (1)(k) former s. 499.013(3); paragraph (1)(l) former s. 
499.0122(2)(b); paragraph (1)(m) former s. 499.012(12). 

499.O5llnspections and investigations.— 
(1)The agents of the department and of the Department of Law Enforcement, after 

they present proper identification, may inspect, monitor, and investigate any 
establishment permitted pursuant to this part during business hours for the purpose 
of enforcing this part, chapters 465, 501, and 893, and the rules of the department 
that protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 



(2)In addition to the authority set forth in subsection (1), the department and any 
duly designated officer or employee of the department may enter and inspect any 
other establishment for the purpose of determining compliance with this part and 
rules adopted under this part regarding any drug, device, or cosmetic product. 

(3)Any application for a permit or product registration or for renewal of such 
permit or registration made pursuant to this part and rules adopted under this part 
constitutes permission for any entry or inspection of the premises in order to verify 
compliance with this part and rules; to discover, investigate, and determine the 
existence of compliance; or to elicit, receive, respond to, and resolve complaints and 
violations. 

(4)Any application for a permit made pursuant to s. 499.012 and rules adopted 
under that section constitutes permission for agents of the department and the 
Department of Law Enforcement, after presenting proper identification, to inspect, 
review, and copy any financial document or record related to the manufacture, 
repackaging, or distribution of a drug as is necessary to verify compliance with this 
part and the rules adopted by the department to administer this part, in order to 
discover, investigate, and determine the existence of compliance, or to elicit, 
receive, respond to, and resolve complaints and violations. 

(5)The authority to inspect under this section includes the authority to access, 
review, and copy any and all financial documents related to the activity of 
manufacturing, repackaging, or distributing prescription drugs. 

(6)The authority to inspect under this section includes the authority to secure: 
(a)Samples or specimens of any drug, device, or cosmetic; or 
(b)Such other evidence as is needed for any action to enforce this part and the 

rules adopted under this part. 
(7)The complaint and all information obtained pursuant to the investigation by the 

department are confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the 
State Constitution until the investigation and the enforcement action are completed. 
However, trade secret information contained therein as defined by s. 812.081(1)(c) 
shall remain confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 
24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution, as long as the information is retained by the 
department. This subsection does not prohibit the department from using such 
information for regulatory or enforcement proceedings under this chapter or from 
providing such information to any law enforcement agency or any other regulatory 
agency. However, the receiving agency shall keep such records confidential and 
exempt as provided in this subsection. In addition, this subsection is not intended to 
prevent compliance with the provisions of s. 499.01212, and the pedigree papers 
required in that section shall not be deemed a trade secret. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 26, ch. 82-402; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 5, ch. 86-133; s. 
11, ch. 88-159; ss. 37, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 199, ch. 94-218; ss. 3, 5, 8, ch. 94-309; s. 
7, ch. 95-366; s. 332, ch. 96-406; s. 240, ch. 99-8; s. 62, ch. 2003-1; s. 21, ch. 
2003-155; s. 26, ch. 2007-6; s. 29, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O52Records of interstate shipment.—For the purpose of enforcing this part, 
carriers engaged in interstate commerce and persons receiving drugs, devices, or 
cosmetics in interstate commerce must, upon the request, in the manner set out 
below, by an officer or employee duly designated by the department, permit the 
officer or employee to have access to and to copy all records showing the movement 
in interstate commerce of any drug, device, or cosmetic, and the quantity, shipper, 
and consignee thereof. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 38, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 30, ch. 2008- 
207. 

499.O55Reports and dissemination of information by department.— 



(1)The department may cause to be published from time to time reports 
summarizing all judgments, decrees, and court orders that have been rendered 
under ss. 499.001-499.79, including the nature of any charges and the dispositions 
of the charges. 

(2)The department may also cause to be disseminated such information regarding 
drugs, devices, and cosmetics as considered necessary in the interest of public 
health and the protection of consumers against fraud. 

(3)This section does not prohibit the department from collecting, reporting, and 
illustrating the results of its investigations. 

(4)The department shall publish on the department's website and update at least 
monthly: 

(a)A list of the prescription drug wholesale distributors, out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributors, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributors against 
whom the department has initiated enforcement action pursuant to this part to 
suspend or revoke a permit, seek an injunction, or otherwise file an administrative 
complaint and the permit number of each such wholesale distributor. 

(b)A list of the prescription drug wholesale distributors, out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributors, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributors to which 
the department has issued a permit, including the date on which each permit will 
expire. 

(c)A list of the prescription drug wholesale distributor, out-of-state prescription 
drug wholesale distributor, and retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor permits 
that have been returned to the department, were suspended, were revoked, have 
expired, or were not renewed in the previous year. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 6, ch. 86-133; ss. 39, 52, ch. 92- 
69; s. 22, ch. 2003-155; s. 31, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O57Expenses and salaries.—Except as otherwise provided in the General 
Appropriations Act, all expenses and salaries shall be paid out of the Professional 
Regulation Trust Fund. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 40, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 564, ch. 
2003-261; s. 14, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O6Embargoing, detaining, or destroying article or processing equipment which 
is in violation of law or rule.— 

(1)When a duly authorized agent of the department finds, or has probable cause to 
believe, that any drug, device, or cosmetic is in violation of any provision of this part 
or any rule adopted under this part so as to be dangerous, unwholesome, or 
fraudulent within the meaning of this part, she or he may issue and enforce a stop- 
sale, stop-use, removal, or hold order, which order gives notice that such article or 
processing equipment is, or is suspected of being, in violation and has been detained 
or embargoed, and which order warns all persons not to remove, use, or dispose of 
such article or processing equipment by sale or otherwise until permission for 
removal, use, or disposal is given by such agent or the court. It is unlawful for any 
person to remove, use, or dispose of such detained or embargoed article or 
processing equipment by sale or otherwise without such permission; and such act is 
a felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or 
s. 775.084. 

(2) When an article or processing equipment detained or embargoed under 
subsection (1) has been found by such agent to be in violation of law or rule, she or 
he shall, within 90 days after the issuance of such notice, petition the circuit court, in 
the jurisdiction of which the article or processing equipment is detained or 
embargoed, for an order for condemnation of such article or processing equipment. 
When such agent has found that an article or processing equipment so detained or 



embargoed is not in violation, she or he shall rescind the stop-sale, stop-use, 
removal, or hold order. 

(3)If the court finds that the detained or embargoed article or processing 
equipment is in violation, such article or processing equipment shall, after entry of 
the court order, be destroyed or made sanitary at the expense of the claimant 
thereof, under the supervision of such agent; and all court costs, fees, and storage 
and other proper expenses shall be taxed against the claimant of such article or 
processing equipment or her or his agent. However, when the violation can be 
corrected by proper labeling of the article or sanitizing of the processing equipment, 
and after such costs, fees, and expenses have been paid and a good and sufficient 
bond, conditioned that such article be so labeled or processed or such processing 
equipment be so sanitized, has been executed, the court may by order direct that 
such article or processing equipment be delivered to the claimant thereof for such 
labeling, processing, or sanitizing, under the supervision of an agent of the 
department. The expense of such supervision shall be paid by the claimant. Such 
bond shall be returned to the claimant of the article or processing equipment upon 
representation to the court by the department that the article or processing 
equipment is no longer in violation of this part and that the expenses of such 
supervision have been paid. 

(4) When the department or any of its authorized agents finds in any room, 
building, vehicle of transportation, or other structure any perishable articles that are 
unsound or contain any filthy, decomposed, or putrid substances, or which may be 
poisonous or deleterious to health or otherwise unsafe, the same being hereby 
declared to be a nuisance, the department, or its authorized agent, shall forthwith 
condemn or destroy such articles or in any other manner render such articles 
unsalable. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 41, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 592, ch. 97- 
103; s. 32, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O62Seizure and condemnation of drugs, devices, or cosmetics.— 
(1)Any article of any drug, device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded 

under this part is subject to seizure and condemnation by the department or by its 
duly authorized agents designated for that purpose in regard to drugs, devices, or 
cosmetics. 

(2) Whenever a duly authorized officer or employee of the department finds cause, 
or has probable cause to believe that cause exists, for the seizure of any drug, 
device, or cosmetic, as set out in this part, he or she shall affix to the article a tag, 
stamp, or other appropriate marking, giving notice that the article is, or is suspected 
of being, subject to seizure under this part and that the article has been detained 
and seized by the department. Such officer or employee shall also warn all persons 
not to remove or dispose of the article, by sale or otherwise, until permission is given 
by the department or the court. Any person who violates this subsection is guilty of a 

felony of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 
775.084. 

(a)When any article detained or seized under this subsection has been found by 
the department to be subject to seizure and condemnation, the department shall 
petition the court for an order of condemnation or sale, as the court directs. The 
proceeds of the sale of drugs, devices, and cosmetics, less the legal costs and 
charges, shall be deposited into the Professional Regulation Trust Fund. 

(b)If the department finds that any article seized under this subsection was not 
subject to seizure, the department or the designated officer or employee shall 
remove the tag or marking. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; ss. 42, 43, 44, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 593, 
ch. 97-103; s. 33, ch. 2008-207; s. 15, ch. 2012-143. 



Note.—Subsection (2) intro, former s. 499.063; paragraphs (2)(a), (b) former s. 
499.064. 

499.O65lnspections; imminent danger.— 
(1)Notwithstanding s. 499.051, the department shall inspect each prescription 

drug wholesale distributor establishment, prescription drug repackager 
establishment, veterinary prescription drug wholesale distributor establishment, 
limited prescription drug veterinary wholesale distributor establishment, and retail 
pharmacy drug wholesale distributor establishment that is required to be permitted 
under this part as often as necessary to ensure compliance with applicable laws and 
rules. The department shall have the right of entry and access to these facilities at 
any reasonable time. 

(2)To protect the public from prescription drugs that are adulterated or otherwise 
unfit for human or animal consumption, the department may examine, sample, 
seize, and stop the sale or use of prescription drugs to determine the condition of 
those drugs. The department may immediately seize and remove any prescription 
drugs if the Secretary of Business and Professional Regulation or his or her designee 
determines that the prescription drugs represent a threat to the public health. The 
owner of any property seized under this section may, within 10 days after the 
seizure, apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for whatever relief is appropriate. 
At any time after 10 days, the department may destroy the drugs as contraband. 

(3)The department may determine that a prescription drug wholesale distributor 
establishment, prescription drug repackager establishment, veterinary prescription 
drug wholesale distributor establishment, limited prescription drug veterinary 
wholesale distributor establishment, or retail pharmacy drug wholesale distributor 
establishment that is required to be permitted under this part is an imminent danger 
to the public health and shall require its immediate closure if the establishment fails 
to comply with applicable laws and rules and, because of the failure, presents an 
imminent threat to the public's health, safety, or welfare. Any establishment so 
deemed and closed shall remain closed until allowed by the department or by judicial 
order to reopen. 

(4)For purposes of this section, a refusal to allow entry to the department for 
inspection at reasonable times, or a failure or refusal to provide the department with 
required documentation for purposes of inspection, constitutes an imminent danger 
to the public health. 
History.—s. 23, ch. 2003-155; s. 6, ch. 2004-328; s. 6, ch. 2006-92; s. 107, ch. 
2008-6; s. 34, ch. 2008-207; s. 6, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O66Penalties; remedies.—In addition to other penalties and other enforcement 
provisions: 

(1)The department may institute such suits or other legal proceedings as are 
required to enforce any provision of this part. If it appears that a person has violated 
any provision of this part for which criminal prosecution is provided, the department 
may provide the appropriate state attorney or other prosecuting agency having 
jurisdiction with respect to such prosecution with the relevant information in the 
department's possession. 

(2)If any person engaged in any activity covered by this part violates any provision 
of this part, any rule adopted under this part, or a cease and desist order as provided 
by this part, the department may obtain an injunction in the circuit court of the 
county in which the violation occurred or in which the person resides or has its 
principal place of business, and may apply in that court for such temporary and 
permanent orders as the department considers necessary to restrain the person from 
engaging in any such activities until the person complies with this part, the rules 
adopted under this part, and the orders of the department authorized by this part or 



to mandate compliance with this part, the rules adopted under this part, and any 
order or permit issued by the department under this part. 

(3)The department may impose an administrative fine, not to exceed $5,000 per 
violation per day, for the violation of any provision of this part or rules adopted 
under this part. Each day a violation continues constitutes a separate violation, and 
each separate violation is subject to a separate fine. All amounts collected pursuant 
to this section shall be deposited into the Professional Regulation Trust Fund and are 
appropriated for the use of the department in administering this part. In determining 
the amount of the fine to be levied for a violation, the department shall consider: 

(a)The severity of the violation; 
(b)Any actions taken by the person to correct the violation or to remedy 

complaints; and 
(c)Any previous violations. 
(4)The department shall deposit any rewards, fines, or collections that are due the 

department and which derive from joint enforcement activities with other state and 
federal agencies which relate to this part, chapter 893, or the federal act, into the 
Professional Regulation Trust Fund. The proceeds of those rewards, fines, and 
collections are appropriated for the use of the department in administering this part. 

(5)The department may issue an emergency order immediately suspending or 
revoking a permit if it determines that any condition in the establishment presents a 

danger to the public health, safety, and welfare. 
(6)The department may issue an emergency order to immediately remove from 

commerce and public access any drug, device, or cosmetic, if the department 
determines that the drug, device, or cosmetic presents a clear and present danger to 
the public health, safety, and welfare. 

(7)Resignation or termination of an affiliated party does not affect the 
department's jurisdiction or discretion to proceed with action to suspend or revoke a 

permit or to impose other penalties or enforcement actions authorized by law. 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 26, ch. 82-402; s. 117, ch. 83-218; 5. 1, ch. 83-265; 
s. 7, ch. 86-133; s. 3, ch. 86-271; ss. 45, 52, ch. 92-69; ss. 4, 5, 8, ch. 94-309; s. 
24, ch. 2003-155; s. 35, ch. 2008-207; s. 16, ch. 2012-143. 

499.O66lCease and desist orders; removal of certain persons.— 
(1)CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS.— 
(a)In addition to any authority otherwise provided in this chapter, the department 

may issue and serve a complaint stating charges upon any permittee or upon any 
affiliated party, whenever the department has reasonable cause to believe that the 
person or individual named therein is engaging in or has engaged in conduct that is: 

1.An act that demonstrates a lack of fitness or trustworthiness to engage in the 
business authorized under the permit issued pursuant to this part, is hazardous to 
the public health, or constitutes business operations that are a detriment to the 
public health; 

2.A violation of any provision of this part; 
3.A violation of any rule of the department; 
4.A violation of any order of the department; or 
5.A breach of any written agreement with the department. 
(b)The complaint must contain a statement of facts and notice of opportunity for a 

hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 
(c)If a hearing is not requested within the time allowed by ss. 120.569 and 120.57, 

or if a hearing is held and the department finds that any of the charges are proven, 
the department may enter an order directing the permittee or the affiliated party 
named in the complaint to cease and desist from engaging in the conduct complained 
of and take corrective action to remedy the effects of past improper conduct and 
assure future compliance. 



(d)A contested or default cease and desist order is effective when reduced to 
writing and served upon the permittee or affiliated party named therein. An 
uncontested cease and desist order is effective as agreed. 

(e)Whenever the department finds that conduct described in paragraph (a) is likely 
to cause an immediate threat to the public health, it may issue an emergency cease 
and desist order requiring the permittee or any affiliated party to immediately cease 
and desist from engaging in the conduct complained of and to take corrective and 
remedial action. The emergency order is effective immediately upon service of a 

copy of the order upon the permittee or affiliated party named therein and remains 
effective for 90 days. If the department begins nonemergency cease and desist 
proceedings under this subsection, the emergency order remains effective until the 
conclusion of the proceedings under ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 

(2)REMOVAL OF AFFILIATED PARTIES BY THE DEPARTMENT.— 
(a)The department may issue and serve a complaint stating charges upon any 

affiliated party and upon the permittee involved whenever the department has 
reason to believe that an affiliated party is engaging in or has engaged in conduct 
that constitutes: 

1.An act that demonstrates a lack of fitness or trustworthiness to engage in the 
business authorized under the permit issued pursuant to this part, is hazardous to 
the public health, or constitutes business operations that are a detriment to the 
public health; 

2.A willful violation of this part; however, if the violation constitutes a 

misdemeanor, a complaint may not be served as provided in this section until the 
affiliated party is notified in writing of the matter of the violation and has been 
afforded a reasonable period of time, as set forth in the notice, to correct the 
violation and has failed to do so; 

3.A violation of any other law involving fraud or moral turpitude which constitutes 
a felony; 

4.A willful violation of any rule of the department; 
5.A willful violation of any order of the department; or 
6.A material misrepresentation of fact, made knowingly and willfully or made with 

reckless disregard for the truth of the matter. 
(b)The complaint must contain a statement of facts and notice of opportunity for a 

hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 
(c)If a hearing is not requested within the time allotted by ss. 120.569 and 120.57, 

or if a hearing is held and the department finds that any of the charges in the 
complaint are proven true, the department may enter an order removing the 
affiliated party or restricting or prohibiting participation by the person in the affairs of 
that permittee or of any other permittee. 

(d)A contested or default order of removal, restriction, or prohibition is effective 
when reduced to writing and served on the permittee and the affiliated party. An 
uncontested order of removal, restriction, or prohibition is effective as agreed. 

(e)1.The chief executive officer, designated representative, or the person holding 
the equivalent office, of a permittee shall promptly notify the department if she or he 
has actual knowledge that any affiliated party is charged with a felony in a state or 
federal court. 

2.Whenever any affiliated party is charged with a felony in a state or federal court 
or with the equivalent of a felony in the courts of any foreign country with which the 
United States maintains diplomatic relations, and the charge alleges violation of any 
law involving prescription drugs, pharmaceuticals, fraud, theft, or moral turpitude, 
the department may enter an emergency order suspending the affiliated party or 
restricting or prohibiting participation by the affiliated party in the affairs of the 
particular permittee or of any other permittee upon service of the order upon the 



permittee and the affiliated party charged. The order must contain notice of 
opportunity for a hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57, where the affiliated 
party may request a postsuspension hearing to show that continued service to or 
participation in the affairs of the permittee does not pose a threat to the public 
health or the interests of the permittee and does not threaten to impair public 
confidence in the permittee. In accordance with applicable departmental rules, the 
department shall notify the affiliated party whether the order suspending or 
prohibiting the person from participation in the affairs of a permittee will be 
rescinded or otherwise modified. The emergency order remains in effect, unless 
otherwise modified by the department, until the criminal charge is disposed of. The 
acquittal of the person charged, or the final, unappealed dismissal of all charges 
against the person, dissolves the emergency order but does not prohibit the 
department from instituting proceedings under paragraph (a). If the person charged 
is convicted or pleads guilty or nob contendere, whether or not an adjudication of 
guilt is entered by the court, the emergency order shall become final. 

(f)Any affiliated party removed pursuant to this section is not eligible for 
reemployment by the permittee or to be an affiliated party of any permittee except 
upon the written consent of the department. Any affiliated party who is removed, 
restricted, or prohibited from participating in the affairs of a permittee pursuant to 
this section may petition the department for modification or termination of the 
removal, restriction, or prohibition. 
History.—s. 25, ch. 2003-155; ss. 2, 36, ch. 2008-207. 

499.O67Denial, suspension, or revocation of permit, certification, or registration.— 
(1)(a)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit if it finds that there 

has been a substantial failure to comply with this part or chapter 465, chapter 501, 
or chapter 893, the rules adopted under this part or those chapters, any final order 
of the department, or applicable federal laws or regulations or other state laws or 
rules governing drugs, devices, or cosmetics. 

(b)The department may deny an application for a permit or certification, or 
suspend or revoke a permit or certification, if the department finds that: 

1.The applicant is not of good moral character or that it would be a danger or not 
in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare if the applicant were 
issued a permit or certification. 

2.The applicant has not met the requirements for the permit or certification. 
3.The applicant is not eligible for a permit or certification for any of the reasons 

enumerated in s. 499.012. 
4.The applicant, permittee, or person certified under s. 499.012(16) demonstrates 

any of the conditions enumerated in s. 499.012. 
5.The applicant, permittee, or person certified under s. 499.012(16) has 

committed any violation of ss. 499.005-499.0054. 
(2)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke any registration required by the 

provisions of this part for the violation of any provision of this part or of any rules 
adopted under this part. 

(3)The department may revoke or suspend a permit: 
(a)If the permit was obtained by misrepresentation or fraud or through a mistake 

of the department; 
(b)If the permit was procured, or attempted to be procured, for any other person 

by making or causing to be made any false representation; or 
(c)If the permittee has violated any provision of this part or rules adopted under 

this part. 
(4)If any permit issued under this part is revoked or suspended, the owner, 

manager, operator, or proprietor of the establishment shall cease to operate as the 
permit authorized, from the effective date of the suspension or revocation until the 



person is again registered with the department and possesses the required permit. If 
a permit is revoked or suspended, the owner, manager, or proprietor shall remove 
all signs and symbols that identify the operation as premises permitted as a drug 
wholesaling establishment; drug, device, or cosmetic manufacturing establishment; 
or retail establishment. The department shall determine the length of time for which 
the permit is to be suspended. If a permit is revoked, the person that owns or 
operates the establishment may not apply for any permit under this part for a period 
of 1 year after the date of the revocation. A revocation of a permit may be 
permanent if the department considers that to be in the best interest of the public 
health. 

(5)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit issued under this part 
which authorizes the permittee to purchase prescription drugs if any owner, officer, 
employee, or other person who participates in administering or operating the 
establishment has been found guilty of any violation of this part or chapter 465, 
chapter 501, or chapter 893, any rules adopted under this part or those chapters, or 
any federal or state drug law, regardless of whether the person has been pardoned, 
had her or his civil rights restored, or had adjudication withheld. 

(6)The department shall deny, suspend, or revoke the permit of any person or 
establishment if the assignment, sale, transfer, or lease of an establishment 
permitted under this part will avoid an administrative penalty, civil action, or criminal 
prosecution. 

(7)Notwithstanding s. 120.60(5), if a permittee fails to comply with s. 499.012(6), 
the department may revoke the permit of the permittee and shall provide notice of 
the intended agency action by posting a notice at the department's headquarters and 
by mailing a copy of the notice of intended agency action by certified mail to the 
most recent mailing address on record with the department and, if the permittee is 
not a natural person, to the permittee's registered agent on file with the Department 
of State. 

(8)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit if it finds the permittee 
has not complied with the credentialing requirements of s. 499.0121(15). 

(9)The department may deny, suspend, or revoke a permit if it finds the permittee 
has not complied with the reporting requirements of, or knowingly made a false 
statement in a report required by, s. 499.0121(14). 
History.—s. 34, ch. 82-225; s. 1, ch. 83-265; s. 8, ch. 86-133; ss. 12, 14, ch. 88- 
159; s. 4, ch. 89-296; ss. 46, 52, ch. 92-69; s. 44, ch. 95-144; s. 594, ch. 97-103; 
s. 17, ch. 2000-326; s. 26, ch. 2003-155; s. 37, ch. 2008-207; s. 20, ch. 2011-141. 
PART II 
ETHER 

499.6olLegislative intent; construction. 
499.61 Definitions. 
499.62License or permit required of manufacturer, distributor, dealer, or purchaser 

of ether. 
499.63Forms for applications for licenses and permits. 
499.64lssuance of licenses and permits; prohibitions. 
499.65Possession of ether without license or permit prohibited; confiscation and 

disposal; exceptions. 
499.66Maintenance of records and sales of ether by manufacturers, distributors, 

and dealers; inspections. 
499.67Maintenance of records by purchasers; inspections. 
499.68Reports of thefts, illegal use, or illegal possession. 
499.69Possession in or near residential housing prohibited; legal entitlement to 

possession of premises not a defense. 
499.7olAdoption of rules by the department. 



499.7lProcedure for cease and desist orders. 
499.72Administrative fines. 
499.73Suspension or revocation of license or permit. 
499.74Conduct of hearings; review of orders of the department. 
499. 75Penalties. 
499.76lnjunctive relief. 
499. 77Exceptions. 
499.78County and municipal ordinances. 
499.79Deposit of fees. 
499.6olLegislative intent; construction.— 
(1)The Legislature finds that the unregulated possession of bulk quantities of ether 

poses a substantial risk to the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of this state, 
and it is the intent of the Legislature that this part be liberally construed to provide 
all protection necessary for the citizens of this state. 

(2)The provisions of this part are cumulative and shall not be construed as 
repealing or affecting any powers, duties, or authority of the department under any 
other law of this state; except that, with respect to the regulation of ether as herein 
provided, in instances in which the provisions of this part may conflict with any other 
such law, the provisions of this part shall control. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 241, ch. 99-8; s. 7, ch. 2012- 
143; s. 123, ch. 2012-184. 

499.6lDefinitions.—As used in this part: 
(1)"Dealer" means any person, firm, corporation, or other entity selling, brokering, 

or transferring ether to anyone other than a licensed ether manufacturer, distributor, 
or dealer. 

(2)"Department" means the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. 
(3)"Distributor" means any person, firm, corporation, or other entity distributing, 

selling, marketing, transferring, or otherwise supplying ether to retailers, dealers, or 
any other entity in the primary channel of trade, but does not include retailers. 

(4)"Ether" means diethyl ether in any form. 
(5)"Manufacturer" means any person, firm, corporation, or other entity preparing, 

deriving, producing, synthesizing, or otherwise making ether in any form or 
repacking, relabeling, or manipulating ether. 

(6)"Purchaser" means any person, firm, corporation, or other entity who purchases 
ether in quantities of 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or more for any purpose 
whatsoever, but does not include a dealer, distributor, or manufacturer. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 242, ch. 99-8; 5. 8, ch. 2012- 
143; s. 124, ch. 2012-184. 

499.62License or permit required of manufacturer, distributor, dealer, or purchaser 
of ether.— 

(1)It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in the business of manufacturing, 
distributing, or dealing in ether in this state, except when done in conformity with 
the provisions of this part. No person shall be required to obtain more than one 
license under this part to handle ether, but each person shall pay the highest fee 
applicable to her or his operation in each location. 

(2)Any person who manufactures, distributes, or deals in ether in this state must 
possess a current valid license issued by the department, except that a 

manufacturer, distributor, or dealer who also purchases ether in this state shall not 
be required to obtain an additional permit as a purchaser of ether. 

(3)Any person who manufactures, distributes, or deals in ether at or from more 
than one location must possess a current valid license for each location. 

(4)Any person who purchases ether in this state must possess a current valid 
permit issued by the department, except that no permit shall be required of any 





permittee and shall have permanently affixed an accurate and current photograph of 
the licensee or permittee. A license or permit issued to a corporation shall set forth 
the full name, date of birth, and physical description of the chief executive officer 
and/or resident agent residing in this state and shall have permanently affixed an 
accurate and current photograph of the chief executive officer and/or resident agent 
residing in this state. Each license and permit shall also contain a license or permit 
number. 

(2)The department may, in its discretion, include other data or information in the 
license or permit when deemed appropriate. 

(3)No license or permit shall be issued, renewed, or allowed to remain in effect for 
any natural person, or for any corporation which has any corporate officer: 

(a)Under 18 years of age. 
(b)Who has been convicted of a felony under the prescription drug or controlled 

substance laws of this state or any other state or federal jurisdiction, regardless of 
whether he or she has been pardoned or had his or her civil rights restored. 

(c)Who has been convicted of any felony other than a felony under the prescription 
drug or controlled substance laws of this state or any other state or federal 
jurisdiction and has not been pardoned or had his or her civil rights restored. 

(d)Who has been adjudicated mentally incompetent and has not had his or her civil 
rights restored. 

(4)It is unlawful for any person to knowingly withhold information or present to the 
department any false, fictitious, or misrepresented application, identification, 
document, information, or data intended or likely to deceive the department for the 
purpose of obtaining a license or permit. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 597, ch. 97-103. 

499.65Possession of ether without license or permit prohibited; confiscation and 
disposal; exceptions.— 

(1)It is unlawful for any person to possess 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 
more of ether unless she or he is the holder of a current valid license or permit as 
provided by this part. 

(2) Whenever the department has reason to believe that any person is or has been 
violating the provisions of this part or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, the 
department may, without further process of law, confiscate and dispose of the ether 
in question. The department is authorized to seize and dispose of any abandoned 
ether. 

(3)The department is authorized to enter into contracts with private business 
entities for the purpose of confiscation and disposal of ether as authorized in 
subsection (2). 

(4)The provisions of subsection (1) shall not apply to: 
(a)Any common carrier transporting ether into this state or within the boundaries 

of this state by air, highway, railroad, or water; 
(b)Any contract or private carrier transporting ether on highways into this state or 

within the boundaries of this state by motor vehicle when such contract or private 
carrier is engaged in such transport pursuant to certificate or permit, by whatever 
name, issued to them by any federal or state officer, agency, bureau, commission, or 
department; 

(c)Pharmacists, for use in the usual course of their professional practice or in the 
performance of their official duties; 

(d)Medical practitioners, for use in the usual course of their professional practice or 
in the performance of their official duties; 

(e)Persons who procure ether for disposition by or under the supervision of 
pharmacists or medical practitioners employed by them or for the purpose of lawful 
research, teaching, or testing, and not for resale; 



(f)Hospitals and other institutions which procure ether for lawful administration by 
practitioners; 

(g)Officers or employees of federal, state, or local governments carrying out their 
official duties; and 

(h)Law enforcement agencies of this state or any of its political subdivisions, and 
the employees thereof, so long as said agencies and employees are acting within the 
scope of their respective official capacities and in the performance of their duties. 

(5)The department may adopt rules regarding persons engaged in lawful teaching, 
research, or testing who possess ether and may issue letters of exemption to 
facilitate the lawful possession of ether under this section. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 598, ch. 97-103; s. 39, ch. 98- 
151. 

499.66Maintenance of records and sales of ether by manufacturers, distributors, 
and dealers; inspections.— 

(l)It is unlawful for any manufacturer, distributor, or dealer to sell, distribute, or 
otherwise transfer ether to any person except a person presenting a current valid 
license or permit as provided by this part. 

(2)Each sale or transfer of ether shall be evidenced by an invoice, receipt, sales 
ticket, or sales slip which shall bear the name, address, and license or permit 
number of the manufacturer, distributor, or dealer and the purchaser or transferee, 
the date of sale or transfer, and the quantity sold or transferred. All original invoices, 
receipts, sales tickets, and sales slips shall be retained by the manufacturer, 
distributor, or dealer, and a copy thereof provided to the purchaser or transferee. 

(3)Each manufacturer, distributor, and dealer shall keep an accurate and current 
written account of all inventories, sales, and transfers of ether. Such records shall be 
maintained by the manufacturer, distributor, or dealer for a period of 5 years. 

(4)Records and inventories as required by subsections (2) and (3) shall be made 
immediately accessible to, and subject to examination and copying by, the 
department and any law enforcement officer of this state without any requirement of 
probable cause or search warrant. 

(5)It is unlawful for any person to knowingly withhold information or to make any 
false or fictitious entry or misrepresentation upon any invoice, receipt, sales ticket, 
or sales slip for the sale, distribution, or transfer of ether or upon any account of 
inventories of ether. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 40, ch. 98-151. 

499.67Maintenance of records by purchasers; inspections.— 
(1)It is unlawful for any person to purchase, receive, store, or use ether without 

maintaining an accurate and current written inventory of all ether purchased, 
received, stored, and used. 

(2)Such records shall include, but not be limited to, invoices, receipts, sales 
tickets, and sales slips; locations, quantities, and dates of use; the names of any 
persons using the ether; and the names and license or permit numbers of all persons 
making such records. Such records shall be maintained by permittees for a period of 
5 years. 

(3)Such records shall be made accessible to, and subject to examination and 
copying by, the department and any law enforcement officer of this state without any 
requirement of probable cause or search warrant. 

(4)It is unlawful for any person to knowingly withhold information or make any 
false or fictitious entry or misrepresentation upon any such records for the purchase, 
receipt, storage, or use of ether. 

(5)It is unlawful for any person to refuse entry or inspection by the department of 
factories, warehouses, or establishments in which ether is manufactured, processed, 



repackaged, or held; to refuse entry by the department into any vehicle being used 
to transport ether; or to refuse the taking of samples by the department. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 41, ch. 98-151. 

499.68Reports of thefts, illegal use, or illegal possession.— 
(1)Any sheriff, police department, or law enforcement officer of this state shall give 

immediate notice to the department of any theft, illegal use, or illegal possession of 
ether involving any person and shall forward a copy of his or her final written report 
to the department. 

(2)Any licensee or permittee who incurs a loss, an unexplained shortage, or a theft 
of ether, or who has knowledge of a loss, an unexplained shortage, or a theft of 
ether, shall, within 12 hours after the discovery thereof, report such loss, theft, or 
unexplained shortage to the county sheriff or police chief of the jurisdiction in which 
the loss, theft, or unexplained shortage occurred. Such loss, theft, or unexplained 
shortage must also be reported to the department by the close of the next business 
day following the discovery thereof. 

(3)Any law enforcement agency which investigates the causes and circumstances 
of any loss, theft, or unexplained shortage of ether shall forward a copy of its final 
written report to the department. The department shall retain all such reports in the 
respective files of the affected licensees and permittees. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 599, ch. 97-103. 

499.69Possession in or near residential housing prohibited; legal entitlement to 
possession of premises not a defense.— 

(1)Notwithstanding the possession of a current valid license or permit as provided 
in this part, it is unlawful for any person to possess 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by 
weight, or more of ether in, or within 500 feet of, any residential housing structure. 

(2)A defendant's legal entitlement to possession of the property where the 
violation occurred shall not be a defense to a prosecution for a violation of subsection 
(1). 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.7olAdoption of rules by the department.— 
(1)The department shall adopt and enforce rules necessary to the administration of 

its authority under this part. The rules must be such as are reasonably necessary for 
the protection of the health, welfare, and safety of the public and persons 
manufacturing, distributing, dealing, and possessing ether, and must provide for 
application forms and procedures, recordkeeping requirements, and security. The 
rules must be in substantial conformity with generally accepted standards of safety 
concerning such subject matter. 

(2)The department may adopt rules regarding recordkeeping and security for 
methyl ethyl ketone (MEK) or butyl acetate as needed. These products and records 
are open to inspection in the same manner as are ether products and records. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 45, ch. 2000-242. 

499.7lProcedure for cease and desist orders.— 
(1)Whenever the department has reason to believe that any person is or has been 

violating any provision of this part or any rules adopted pursuant thereto, it shall 
proceed to determine the matter. 

(2)If the department determines that any provision of this part or any rules 
adopted pursuant thereto have been violated, it shall issue to the person charged 
with such violation an order requiring such person to cease and desist from such 
violation or imposing an administrative fine, or both. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.72Administrative fines.— 
(1)If any person violates any provision of this part or any rule adopted pursuant 

thereto, or violates a cease and desist order issued by the department, the 



department may impose an administrative fine, not to exceed $5,000 for each 
violation per day, or may suspend or revoke the license or permit issued to such 
person, or both. Each day such violation continues constitutes a separate violation, 
and each such separate violation is subject to a separate fine. The department shall 
allow the licensee or permittee a reasonable period, not to exceed 30 days, within 
which to pay to the department the amount of the fine so imposed. If the licensee or 
permittee fails to pay the fine in its entirety to the department at its office in 
Tallahassee within the period so allowed, the licenses or permits of such person shall 
stand revoked upon expiration of such period. 

(2)All such fines, monetary penalties, and costs received by the department in 
connection with this part shall be deposited in the Professional Regulation Trust 
Fund. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 18, ch. 2012-143. 

499.73Suspension or revocation of license or permit.— 
(1)The violation of any provision of this part, any rule adopted pursuant thereto, or 

any cease and desist order issued by the department by a licensee or permittee as 
provided in this part shall be cause for revocation or suspension of all licenses or 
permits held by such licensee or permittee after the department has determined the 
licensee or permittee to be guilty of such violation. 

(2)If the department finds the licensee or permittee to be guilty of such violation, 
it shall enter its order suspending or revoking the license or permit of the person 
charged. An order of suspension shall state the period of time of such suspension, 
which period shall not be in excess of 1 year from the date of such order. An order of 
revocation may be entered for a period not exceeding 5 years; such order shall effect 
the revocation of all licenses or permits then held by the person charged, and during 
such period no license or permit shall be issued to said person. If, during the period 
between the beginning of proceedings and the entry of an order of suspension or 
revocation by the department, a new license or permit has been issued to the person 
charged, any order of suspension or revocation shall operate effectively with respect 
to the new license or permit held by such person. 

(3)Any person or office of a corporation whose permit or license has been 
suspended or revoked shall not be issued a new permit or license under any other 
name or company name until the expiration of the suspension or revocation in which 
she or he has been involved. 

(4)The provisions of this section are cumulative and shall not affect the 
administrative fine and injunction provisions of ss. 499.72 and 499.76. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; 5. 600, ch. 97-103. 

499.74Conduct of hearings; review of orders of the department.— 
(1)All hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of chapter 

120. 
(2)All review of orders of the department shall be in accordance with the provisions 

of chapter 120. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.75Penalties. — 

(1)Any person who knowingly manufactures, distributes, or deals in ether without 
possessing a valid current license as required by s. 499.62(2) is guilty of a felony of 
the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(2)Any person who knowingly purchases 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 
more of ether without possessing a valid current permit as required by s. 499.62(4) 
is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 
775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(3)Any person who knowingly withholds information or presents to the department 
any false, fictitious, or misrepresented application, identification, document, 



information, statement, or data intended or likely to deceive the department for the 
purpose of obtaining a license or permit as prohibited by s. 499.64(4) is guilty of a 

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 
(4)Any person who knowingly possesses 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 

more of ether and is not the holder of a valid current license or permit as prohibited 
by s. 499.65(1) is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as provided in s. 
775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(5)Any person who knowingly sells or otherwise transfers 2.5 gallons, or equivalent 
by weight, or more of ether to any person who is not the holder of a valid current 
license or permit as prohibited by s. 499.66(1) is guilty of a felony of the third 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 

(6)Any person who knowingly withholds information or makes any false or fictitious 
entry or misrepresentation upon any invoice, receipt, sales ticket, sales slip, or 
account of inventories as prohibited by s. 499.66(5) is guilty of a misdemeanor of 
the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(7)Any licensee who knowingly fails to maintain written accounts of inventories or 
records of sales or transfers as required by s. 499.66(3) is guilty of a misdemeanor 
of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(8)Any permittee who knowingly fails to maintain written inventories and records 
as required by s. 499.67 is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(9)Any licensee or permittee who fails to report the loss, unexplained shortage, or 
theft of ether as required by s. 499.68(2) is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 

(10)Any person who knowingly possesses 2.5 gallons, or equivalent by weight, or 
more of ether in, or within 500 feet of, any residential housing structure as 
prohibited by s. 499.69(1) is guilty of a felony of the second degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 121, ch. 91-224; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.76lnjunctive relief.—In addition to the penalties and other enforcement 
provisions of this part, in the event any person engaged in any of the activities 
covered by this part violates any provision of this part, any rule adopted pursuant 
thereto, or any cease and desist order as provided by this part, the department is 
authorized to resort to proceedings for injunction in the circuit court of the county in 
which the violation occurred or in which the person resides or has his or her principal 
place of business and may therein apply for such temporary and permanent orders 
as the department may deem necessary to restrain such person from engaging in 
any such activities until such person complies with the provisions of this part, the 
rules adopted pursuant thereto, and the orders of the department as authorized by 
this part. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 601, ch. 97-103. 

499.77Exceptions.—Nothing contained in this part shall apply to the regular 
military and naval forces of the United States, or to the duly organized military 
forces of any state or territory thereof, provided that they are acting within their 
respective official capacities and in the performance of their duties. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 

499.78County and municipal ordinances.—Nothing contained in this part shall 
affect any existing ordinance, rule, or regulation pertaining to ether in any county or 
municipality in this state, which ordinance, rule, or regulation is more restrictive than 
the provisions of this part and the rules adopted pursuant thereto; nor shall the 
provisions of this part limit the power of any county or municipality to make 
ordinances, rules, or regulations pertaining to ether which may be more restrictive 
than the provisions of this part and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. 



History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429. 
499.79Deposit of fees.—All fees collected for licenses and permits required by this 

part shall be deposited in the Professional Regulation Trust Fund, and all moneys 
collected under this part and deposited in the trust fund shall be used by the 
department in the administration of this part. The Department of Business and 
Professional Regulation shall maintain a separate account in the Professional 
Regulation Trust Fund for the Drugs, Devices, and Cosmetics program. 
History.—ss. 10, 11, ch. 86-133; s. 4, ch. 91-429; s. 45, ch. 95-144; s. 19, ch. 
20 12-143. 



The 2012 Florida Statutes 

CHAPTER 120 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT 

120.5oException to application of chapter. 

120.5lShort title. 

120.51 5DecLaration of policy. 

1 20.S2Definitions. 

120.S25Meetings, hearings, and workshops. 

120. S3Maintenance of orders; indexing; listing; organizational information. 

120.533Coordination of indexing by Department of State. 

120.536RuLemaking authority; repeal; chaLLenge. 

120. 54Rulemaking. 

120.541 Statement of estimated regulatory costs. 

120.542Variances and waivers. 

120.545Committee review of agency ruLes. 

1 20.55Publication. 

120.555Summary removal of published ruLes no Longer in force and effect. 

120.56ChaLLenges to ruLes. 

120.565DecLaratory statement by agencies. 

120.569Decisions which affect substantiaL interests. 

120. 57Additional procedures for particuLar cases. 

120.573Mediation of disputes. 

120.574Summary hearing. 

1 20.595Attorney's fees. 

1 20.6oLicensing. 

1 20.62Agency investigations. 

120.63Exemption from act. 

120.65Administrative law judges. 

120.651 Designation of two administrative Law judges to preside over actions involving department or 

boards. 

120.655WithhoLding funds to pay for administrative law judge services to school boards. 

120.66Ex parte communications. 

120.665Disqualification of agency personnel. 



1 20.68Judicial review. 

120.69Enforcement of agency action. 

1 20.695Notice of noncompLiance. 

120.72LegisLative intent; references to chapter 120 or portions thereof. 

120.73Circuit court proceedings; declaratory judgments. 

120.74Agency review, revision, and report. 

120.745LegisLative review of agency rules in effect on or before November 16, 2010. 

120.7455LegisLative survey of regulatory impacts. 

120.8oExceptions and special requirements; agencies. 

120.81 Exceptions and special requirements; general areas. 

I 20.5OException to application of chapter.—This chapter shaLL not apply to: 

(1 )The Legislature. 

(2)The courts. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 3, ch. 77-468; s. 1, ch. 78-162. 

120.5lShort title.—This chapter may be known and cited as the "Administrative Procedure Act." 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310. 

1 120.5l5Declaration of policy.—This chapter provides uniform procedures for the exercise of specified 

authority. This chapter does not limit or impinge upon the assignment of executive power under ArticLe IV of 

the State Constitution or the Legal authority of an appointing authority to direct and supervise those 

appointees serving at the pLeasure of the appointing authority. For purposes of this chapter, adherence to the 

direction and supervision of an appointing authority does not constitute deLegation or transfer of statutory 

authority assigned to the appointee. 

History.—s. 7, ch. 2012-116. 

Note.—SectiOn 3, ch. 2012-116, provides that t]he Legislature intends that the amendments made by this 

act to ss. 20.02, 20.03, and 20.05, Florida Statutes, which apply to the organizational structure of the 

executive branch, and the creation of s. 120.515, Florida Statutes, which applies to administrative procedure, 

are to clarify that the pLacement of an executive department under the direct administration of an officer or 

board appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the Governor does not implicitLy Limit or restrict the 

Governor's prerogative, legal authority, and constitutional responsibility to direct and supervise the execution 

of the law and the exercise of LawfuL discretion." 

120.52Definitions.—As used in this act: 

(1 )"Agency" means the following officers or governmental entities if acting pursuant to powers other 



than those derived from the constitution: 

(a)The Governor; each state officer and state department, and each departmentaL unit described in s. 

20.04; the Board of Governors of the State University System; the Commission on Ethics; the Fish and Wildlife 

Conservation Commission; a regional water suppLy authority; a regional planning agency; a multicounty special 

district, but only when a majority of its governing board is comprised of nonelected persons; educational 

units; and each entity described in chapters 163, 373, 380, and 582 and s. 186.504. 

(b)Each officer and governmentaL entity in the state having statewide jurisdiction or jurisdiction in more 

than one county. 

(c)Each officer and governmental entity in the state having jurisdiction in one county or less than one 

county, to the extent they are expressLy made subject to this act by generaL or speciaL Law or existing judicial 

decisions. 

This definition does not include any municipaLity or legal entity created soLeLy by a municipaLity; any legal 

entity or agency created in whole or in part pursuant to part II of chapter 361; any metropolitan pLanning 

organization created pursuant to s. 339.175; any separate legal or administrative entity created pursuant to s. 

339.175 of which a metropolitan planning organization is a member; an expressway authority pursuant to 

chapter 348 or any transportation authority under chapter 343 or chapter 349; or any legal or administrative 

entity created by an interlocaL agreement pursuant to s. 163.01(7), unless any party to such agreement is 

otherwise an agency as defined in this subsection. 

(2)"Agency action" means the whoLe or part of a ruLe or order, or the equivalent, or the denial of a 

petition to adopt a ruLe or issue an order. The term also includes any denial of a request made under s. 

120.54(7). 

(3)"Agency head" means the person or coLlegiaL body in a department or other governmentaL unit 

statutorily responsible for final agency action. An agency head appointed by and serving at the pleasure of an 

appointing authority remains subject to the direction and supervision of the appointing authority, but actions 

taken by the agency head as authorized by statute are official acts. 

(4)"Committee" means the Administrative Procedures Committee. 

(5)"Division" means the Division of Administrative Hearings. Any document fiLed with the division by a 

party represented by an attorney shalL be filed by electronic means through the division's website. Any 

document filed with the division by a party not represented by an attorney shall, whenever possibLe, be filed 

by electronic means through the division's website. 

(6)"Educational unit" means a LocaL schooL district, a community college district, the FLorida School for 

the Deaf and the BLind, or a state university when the university is acting pursuant to statutory authority 

derived from the Legislature. 

(7)"Final order" means a written finaL decision which results from a proceeding under s. 120.56, s. 



120.565, s. 120.569, s. 120.57, s. 120.573, or s. 120.574 which is not a rule, and which is not excepted from 

the definition of a ruLe, and which has been filed with the agency clerk, and includes final agency actions 

which are affirmative, negative, injunctive, or decLaratory in form. A final order includes all materials 

explicitly adopted in it. The cLerk shalL indicate the date of filing on the order. 

(8)"Invalid exercise of deLegated Legislative authority" means action that goes beyond the powers, 

functions, and duties delegated by the Legislature. A proposed or existing rule is an invalid exercise of 

delegated legislative authority if any one of the folLowing applies: 

(a)The agency has materially faiLed to foLLow the applicable rulemaking procedures or requirements set 

forth in this chapter; 

(b)The agency has exceeded its grant of ruLemaking authority, citation to which is required by s. 

120.54(3)(a)1.; 

(c)The rule enlarges, modifies, or contravenes the specific provisions of law implemented, citation to 

which is required by s. 120.54(3)(a)1.; 

(d)The rule is vague, faiLs to establish adequate standards for agency decisions, or vests unbridled 

discretion in the agency; 

(e)The rule is arbitrary or capricious. A rule is arbitrary if it is not supported by logic or the necessary 

facts; a rule is capricious if it is adopted without thought or reason or is irrational; or 

(f)The rule imposes regulatory costs on the reguLated person, county, or city which could be reduced by 

the adoption of less costly alternatives that substantially accomplish the statutory objectives. 

A grant of rulemaking authority is necessary but not sufficient to aLlow an agency to adopt a rule; a specific 

law to be implemented is also required. An agency may adopt only rules that implement or interpret the 

specific powers and duties granted by the enabling statute. No agency shalL have authority to adopt a rule 

only because it is reasonabLy reLated to the purpose of the enabLing legisLation and is not arbitrary and 

capricious or is within the agency's cLass of powers and duties, nor shalL an agency have the authority to 

implement statutory provisions setting forth general legislative intent or poLicy. Statutory Language granting 

rulemaking authority or generaLLy describing the powers and functions of an agency shall be construed to 

extend no further than implementing or interpreting the specific powers and duties conferred by the enabling 

statute. 

(9)"Law implemented" means the Language of the enabling statute being carried out or interpreted by an 

agency through rulemaking. 

(10)"License" means a franchise, permit, certification, registration, charter, or similar form of 

authorization required by law, but it does not incLude a license required primarily for revenue purposes when 

issuance of the license is merely a ministerial act. 

(11 )"Licensing" means the agency process respecting the issuance, denial, renewal, revocation, 



suspension, annulment, withdrawal, or amendment of a license or imposition of terms for the exercise of a 

license. 

(12)"Official reporter" means the publication in which an agency publishes final orders, the index to final 

orders, and the list of final orders which are listed rather than published. 

(1 3)"Party" means: 

(a)Specifically named persons whose substantial interests are being determined in the proceeding. 

(b)Any other person who, as a matter of constitutional right, provision of statute, or provision of agency 

regulation, is entitled to participate in whole or in part in the proceeding, or whose substantial interests will 

be affected by proposed agency action, and who makes an appearance as a party. 

(c)Any other person, including an agency staff member, allowed by the agency to intervene or participate 

in the proceeding as a party. An agency may by rule authorize limited forms of participation in agency 

proceedings for persons who are not eligible to become parties. 

(d)Any county representative, agency, department, or unit funded and authorized by state statute or 

county ordinance to represent the interests of the consumers of a county, when the proceeding involves the 

substantial interests of a significant number of residents of the county and the board of county commissioners 

has, by resolution, authorized the representative, agency, department, or unit to represent the class of 

interested persons. The authorizing resolution shall apply to a specific proceeding and to appeals and ancillary 

proceedings thereto, and it shall not be required to state the names of the persons whose interests are to be 

represented. 

The term "party" does not include a member government of a regional water supply authority or a 

governmental or quasi-judicial board or commission established by local ordinance or special or general law 

where the governing membership of such board or commission is shared with, in whole or in part, or 

appointed by a member government of a regional water supply authority in proceedings under s. 120.569, s. 

120.57, or s. 120.68, to the extent that an interlocal agreement under ss. 163.01 and 373.713 exists in which 

the member government has agreed that its substantial interests are not affected by the proceedings or that 

it is to be bound by alternative dispute resolution in lieu of participating in the proceedings. This exclusion 

applies only to those particular types of disputes or controversies, if any, identified in an interlocal 

agreement. 

(14)"Person" means any person described in s. 1.01, any unit of government in or outside the state, and 

any agency described in subsection (1). 

(15)"Recommended order" means the official recommendation of an administrative law judge assigned 

by the division or of any other duly authorized presiding officer, other than an agency head or member of an 

agency head, for the final disposition of a proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 

(16)"Rule" means each agency statement of general applicability that implements, interprets, or 



prescribes law or policy or describes the procedure or practice requirements of an agency and incLudes any 

form which imposes any requirement or solicits any information not specifically required by statute or by an 

existing rule. The term also includes the amendment or repeal of a rule. The term does not incLude: 

(a)Internal management memoranda which do not affect either the private interests of any person or any 

plan or procedure important to the pubLic and which have no application outside the agency issuing the 

memorandum. 

(b)Legal memoranda or opinions issued to an agency by the Attorney GeneraL or agency LegaL opinions 

prior to their use in connection with an agency action. 

(c)The preparation or modification of: 

1 .Agency budgets. 

2.Statements, memoranda, or instructions to state agencies issued by the Chief Financial Officer or 

Comptroller as chief fiscal officer of the state and relating or pertaining to cLaims for payment submitted by 

state agencies to the Chief FinanciaL Officer or Comptroller. 

3.Contractual provisions reached as a result of coLlective bargaining. 

4.Memoranda issued by the Executive Office of the Governor relating to information resources 

management. 

(17)"Rulemaking authority" means statutory language that explicitly authorizes or requires an agency to 

adopt, develop, estabLish, or otherwise create any statement coming within the definition of the term "rule." 

(18)"Small city" means any municipality that has an unincarcerated popuLation of 10,000 or Less 

according to the most recent decenniaL census. 

(19)"Small county" means any county that has an unincarcerated population of 75,000 or Less according 

to the most recent decennial census. 

(20)"Unadopted ruLe" means an agency statement that meets the definition of the term "ruLe," but that 

has not been adopted pursuant to the requirements of s. 120.54. 

(21 )"Variance" means a decision by an agency to grant a modification to aLL or part of the Literal 

requirements of an agency rule to a person who is subject to the ruLe. Any variance shalL conform to the 

standards for variances outlined in this chapter and in the uniform rules adopted pursuant to s. 120.54(5). 

(22)"Waiver" means a decision by an agency not to apply all or part of a rule to a person who is subject 

to the rule. Any waiver shall conform to the standards for waivers outlined in this chapter and in the uniform 

rules adopted pursuant to s. 120.54(5). 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 1, ch. 75-191; s. 1, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 12, ch. 77-290; s. 2, ch. 77-453; s. 1, ch. 78- 

28; s. 1, ch. 78-425; s. 1, ch. 79-20; s. 55, ch. 79-40; s. 1, ch. 79-299; s. 2, ch. 81-119; s. 1, ch. 81-180; s. 7, ch. 82-180; s. 1, ch. 

83-78; s. 2, ch. 83-273; s. 10, ch. 84-170; s. 15, ch. 85-80; s. 1, ch. 85-168; s. 2, ch. 87-385; s. 1, ch. 88-367; s. 1, ch. 89-147; s. 

1, ch. 91-46; s. 9, ch. 92-166; s. 50, ch. 92-279; s. 55, ch. 92-326; s. 3, ch. 96-159; s. 1, ch. 97-176; s. 2, ch. 97-286; s. 1, ch. 98- 



402; s. 64, ch. 99-245; s. 2, ch. 99-379; S. 895, ch. 2002-387; s. 1, ch. 2003-94; s. 138, ch. 2003-261; s. 7, ch. 2003-286; s. 3, ch. 

2007-196; s. 13, ch. 2007-217; s. 2, ch. 2008-104; s. 1, ch. 2009-85; s. 1, ch. 2009-187; s. 10, ch. 2010-5; s. 2, ch. 2010-205; s. 7, 

ch. 2011-208; s. 8, ch. 2012-116. 

120. 525Meetings, hearings, and workshops.— 

(1 )Except in the case of emergency meetings, each agency shall give notice of public meetings, hearings, 

and workshops by publication in the Florida Administrative Weekly and on the agency's website not less than 7 

days before the event. The notice shaLt incLude a statement of the generaL subject matter to be considered. 

(2)An agenda shall be prepared by the agency in time to ensure that a copy of the agenda may be 

received at least 7 days before the event by any person in the state who requests a copy and who pays the 

reasonable cost of the copy. The agenda, aLong with any meeting materiaLs avaiLabLe in electronic form 

excluding confidential and exempt information, shaLL be published on the agency's website. The agenda shall 

contain the items to be considered in order of presentation. After the agenda has been made avaiLabLe, a 

change shall be made only for good cause, as determined by the person designated to preside, and stated in 

the record. Notification of such change shalL be at the earliest practicable time. 

(3)If an agency finds that an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or weLfare requires 

immediate action, the agency may hold an emergency public meeting and give notice of such meeting by any 

procedure that is fair under the circumstances and necessary to protect the public interest, if: 

(a)The procedure provides at least the proceduraL protection given by other statutes, the State 

Constitution, or the United States Constitution. 

(b)The agency takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency 

procedure. 

(c)The agency pubLishes in writing at the time of, or prior to, its action the specific facts and reasons for 

finding an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or welfare and its reasons for concluding that the 

procedure used is fair under the circumstances. The agency findings of immediate danger, necessity, and 

procedural fairness shall be judicialLy reviewable. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 96-159; s. 3, ch. 2009-187. 

120.53Maintenance of orders; indexing; listing; organizational information.— 

(1)(a)Each agency shaLl maintain: 

1 .All agency final orders. 

2.a.A current hierarchicaL subject-matter index, identifying for the public any ruLe or order as specified 

in this subparagraph. 

b.In lieu of the requirement for making avaiLable for public inspection and copying a hierarchical subject- 

matter index of its orders, an agency may maintain and make availabLe for pubLic use an eLectronic database 



of its orders that allows users to research and retrieve the full texts of agency orders by devising an ad hoc 

indexing system employing any logical search terms in common usage which are composed by the user and 

which are contained in the orders of the agency or by descriptive information about the order which may not 

be specifically contained in the order. 

c.The agency orders that must be indexed, unless excluded under paragraph (c) or paragraph (d), 

include: 

(I)Each final agency order resulting from a proceeding under s. 120.57 or s. 120.573. 

(II)Each final agency order rendered pursuant to s. 120.57(4) which contains a statement of agency poLicy 

that may be the basis of future agency decisions or that may otherwise contain a statement of precedential 

value. 

(III)Each declaratory statement issued by an agency. 

(IV)Each final order resulting from a proceeding under s. 120.56 or s. 120.574. 

3.A list of all final orders rendered pursuant to s. 120.57(4) which have been excluded from the indexing 

requirement of this section, with the approval of the Department of State, because they do not contain 

statements of agency policy or statements of precedential value. The List must include the name of the 

parties to the proceeding and the number assigned to the final order. 

4.All final orders listed pursuant to subparagraph 3. 

(b)An agency finaL order that must be indexed or listed pursuant to paragraph (a) must be indexed or 

listed within 120 days after the order is rendered. Each final order that must be indexed or Listed pursuant to 

paragraph (a) must have attached a copy of the complete text of any materials incorporated by reference; 

however, if the quantity of the materials incorporated makes attachment of the complete text of the 

materials impractical, the order may contain a statement of the location of such materials and the manner in 

which the pubLic may inspect or obtain copies of the materials incorporated by reference. The Department of 

State shall estabLish by rule procedures for indexing final orders, and procedures of agencies for indexing 

orders must be approved by the department. 

(c)Each agency must receive approval in writing from the Department of State for: 

1 .The specific types and categories of agency finaL orders that may be excluded from the indexing and 

public inspection requirements, as determined by the department pursuant to paragraph (d). 

2.The method for maintaining indexes, lists, and final orders that must be indexed or Listed and made 

available to the pubLic. 

3.The method by which the public may inspect or obtain copies of indexes, lists, and final orders. 

4.A sequentiaL numbering system which numbers aLl final orders required to be indexed or listed pursuant 

to paragraph (a), in the order rendered. 

5.Proposed ruLes for implementing the requirements of this section for indexing and making final orders 



available for public inspection. 

(d)In determining which finaL orders may be excLuded from the indexing and pubLic inspection 

requirements, the Department of State may consider all factors specified by an agency, including precedential 

value, legal significance, and purpose. OnLy agency final orders that are of limited or no precedential value, 

that are of limited or no Legal significance, or that are ministeriaL in nature may be excluded. 

(e)Each agency shalL specify the specific types or categories of agency final orders that are excluded from 

the indexing and public inspection requirements. 

(f)Each agency shaLl specify the Location or locations where agency indexes, lists, and finaL orders that 

are required to be indexed or listed are maintained and shall specify the method or procedure by which the 

public may inspect or obtain copies of indexes, Lists, and final orders. 

(g)Each agency shalL specify aLL systems in use by the agency to search and Locate agency final orders that 

are required to be indexed or listed, incLuding, but not limited to, any automated system. An agency shall 

make the search capabilities empLoyed by the agency available to the pubLic subject to reasonable terms and 

conditions, including a reasonabLe charge, as provided by s. 119.07. The agency shaLL specify how assistance 

and information pertaining to final orders may be obtained. 

(h)Each agency shalL specify the numbering system used to identify agency finaL orders. 

(2)(a)An agency may comply with subparagraphs (1 )(a)1. and 2. by designating an officiaL reporter to 

publish and index by subject matter each agency order that must be indexed and made availabLe to the 

public, or by electronically transmitting to the division a copy of such orders for posting on the division's 

website. An agency is in compliance with subparagraph (1 )(a)3. if it publishes in its designated reporter a list 

of each agency final order that must be Listed and preserves each listed order and makes it avaiLabLe for 

public inspection and copying. 

(b)An agency may pubLish its official reporter or may contract with a publishing firm to pubLish its official 

reporter; however, if an agency contracts with a publishing firm to publish its reporter, the agency is 

responsible for the quality, timeLiness, and usefulness of the reporter. The Department of State may publish 

an official reporter for an agency or may contract with a publishing firm to pubLish the reporter for the 

agency; however, if the department contracts for publication of the reporter, the department is responsibLe 

for the quality, timeliness, and usefuLness of the reporter. A reporter that is designated by an agency as its 

official reporter and approved by the Department of State constitutes the official compilation of the 

administrative final orders for that agency. 

(c)A reporter that is published by the Department of State may be made avaiLabLe by annual subscription, 

and each agency that designates an officiaL reporter published by the department may be charged a space 

rate payable to the department. The subscription rate and the space rate must be equitabLy apportioned to 

cover the costs of publishing the reporter. 



(d)An agency that designates an official reporter need not publish the full text of an agency final order 

that is rendered pursuant to s. 120.57(4) and that must be indexed pursuant to paragraph (1 )(a), if the final 

order is preserved by the agency and made availabLe for public inspection and copying and the official 

reporter indexes the final order and includes a synopsis of the order. A synopsis must include the names of the 

parties to the order; any ruLe, statute, or constitutional provision pertinent to the order; a summary of the 

facts, if included in the order, which are pertinent to the finaL disposition; and a summary of the final 

disposition. 

(3)Agency orders that must be indexed or Listed are documents of continuing Legal vaLue and must be 

permanently preserved and made avaiLable to the public. Each agency to which this chapter applies shall 

provide, under the direction of the Department of State, for the preservation of orders as required by this 

chapter and for maintaining an index to those orders. 

(4)Each agency must provide any person who makes a request with a written description of its 

organization and the generaL course of its operations. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 2, ch. 75-191; s. 2, ch. 76-131; s. 2, ch. 79-299; s. 1, ch. 81-296; s. 2, ch. 81-309; s. 8, ch. 83-92; 

s. 34, ch. 83-217; s. 3, ch. 83-273; s. 1, ch. 84-203; s. 77, ch. 85-180; s. 2, ch. 87-100; s. 2, ch. 88-384; s. 44, ch. 90-136; s. 35, 

ch. 90-302; s. 2, ch. 91-30; s. 79, ch. 91-45; s. 1, ch. 91-191; s. 1, ch. 92-166; s. 143, ch. 92-279; s. 55, ch. 92-326; s. 757, ch. 95- 

147; s. 5, ch. 96-159; s. 2, ch. 96-423; s. 2, ch. 97-176; s. 3, ch. 2008-104. 

120.53 3Coordination of indexing by Department of State.—The Department of State shall: 

(1 )Administer the coordination of the indexing, management, preservation, and avaiLabiLity of agency 

orders that must be indexed or Listed pursuant to s. 120.53(1). 

(2)Provide, by rule, guidelines for the indexing of agency orders. More than one system for indexing may 

be approved by the Department of State, including systems or methods in use, or proposed for use, by an 

agency. More than one system may be approved for use by a single agency as best serves the needs of that 

agency and the pubLic. 

(3)Provide, by rule, for storage and retrieval systems to be maintained by agencies for indexing, and 

making availabLe, agency orders by subject matter. The Department of State may approve more than one 

system, including systems in use, or proposed for use, by an agency. Storage and retrievaL systems that may 

be used by an agency include, without limitation, a designated reporter or reporters, a microfiLming system, 

an automated system, or any other system considered appropriate by the Department of State. 

(4)Determine which final orders must be indexed for each agency. 

(5)Require each agency to report to the department concerning which types or categories of agency 

orders establish precedent for each agency. 

History.—s. 9, ch. 91-30; s. 1, ch. 91-191; s. 7, ch. 96-159. 



120. 536Ru lemaking authority; repeal; challenge.— 

(1 )A grant of rulemaking authority is necessary but not sufficient to alLow an agency to adopt a ruLe; a 

specific law to be impLemented is also required. An agency may adopt only ruLes that implement or interpret 

the specific powers and duties granted by the enabLing statute. No agency shalL have authority to adopt a rule 

only because it is reasonabLy reLated to the purpose of the enabLing legisLation and is not arbitrary and 

capricious or is within the agency's cLass of powers and duties, nor shalL an agency have the authority to 

implement statutory provisions setting forth general legislative intent or poLicy. Statutory Language granting 

rulemaking authority or generaLLy describing the powers and functions of an agency shall be construed to 

extend no further than implementing or interpreting the specific powers and duties conferred by the enabling 

statute. 

(2)Unless otherwise expressly provided by law: 

(a)The repeal of one or more provisions of law implemented by a ruLe that on its face implements only 

the provision or provisions repealed and no other provision of Law nullifies the rule. Whenever notice of the 

nullification of a rule under this subsection is received from the committee or otherwise, the Department of 

State shall remove the ruLe from the FLorida Administrative Code as of the effective date of the law effecting 

the nullification and update the historicaL notes for the code to show the ruLe repealed by operation of Law. 

(b)The repeal of one or more provisions of law implemented by a ruLe that on its face implements the 

provision or provisions repeaLed and one or more other provisions of law nullifies the ruLe or applicable portion 

of the rule to the extent that it impLements the repealed law. The agency having authority to repeal or amend 

the rule shall, within 180 days after the effective date of the repeaLing law, pubLish a notice of rule 

development identifying aLl portions of ruLes affected by the repealing Law, and if no notice is timely 

published the operation of each rule implementing a repealed provision of law shall be suspended until such 

notice is published. 

(c)The repeal of one or more provisions of law that, other than as provided in paragraph (a) or paragraph 

(b), causes a rule or portion of a rule to be of uncertain enforceability requires the Department of State to 

treat the rule as provided by s. 120.555. A rule shall be considered to be of uncertain enforceabiLity under this 

paragraph if the division notifies the Department of State that a rule or a portion of the rule has been 

invalidated in a division proceeding based upon a repeal of law, or the committee gives written notification to 

the Department of State and the agency having power to amend or repeal the ruLe that a law has been 

repealed creating doubt about whether the rule is still in full force and effect. 

(3)The Administrative Procedures Committee or any substantially affected person may petition an agency 

to repeal any rule, or portion thereof, because it exceeds the rulemaking authority permitted by this section. 

Not later than 30 days after the date of fiLing the petition if the agency is headed by an individual, or not 

later than 45 days if the agency is headed by a coLlegial body, the agency shall initiate ruLemaking proceedings 



to repeal the rule, or portion thereof, or deny the petition, giving a written statement of its reasons for the 

denial. 

(4)Nothing in this section shall be construed to change the legal status of a rule that has otherwise been 

judicially or administratively determined to be invalid. 

History.—s. 9, ch. 96-159; s. 3, ch. 99-379; s. 15, ch. 2000-151; s. 15, ch. 2005-2; s. 4, ch. 2008-104; S. 1, ch. 2012-31. 

I 20.54Rulemaking.— 

(1 )GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL RULES OTHER THAN EMERGENCY RULES.— 

(a)Rulemaking is not a matter of agency discretion. Each agency statement defined as a rule by s. 120.52 

shall be adopted by the rulemaking procedure provided by this section as soon as feasible and practicable. 

1 .Rulemaking shall be presumed feasible unless the agency proves that: 

a.The agency has not had sufficient time to acquire the knowledge and experience reasonably necessary 

to address a statement by rulemaking; or 

b.Related matters are not sufficiently resolved to enable the agency to address a statement by 

rulemaking. 

2.Rulemaking shall be presumed practicable to the extent necessary to provide fair notice to affected 

persons of relevant agency procedures and applicable principles, criteria, or standards for agency decisions 

unless the agency proves that: 

a.Detail or precision in the establishment of principles, criteria, or standards for agency decisions is not 

reasonable under the circumstances; or 

b.The particular questions addressed are of such a narrow scope that more specific resolution of the 

matter is impractical outside of an adjudication to determine the substantial interests of a party based on 

individual circumstances. 

(b)Whenever an act of the Legislature is enacted which requires implementation of the act by rules of an 

agency within the executive branch of state government, such rules shall be drafted and formally proposed as 

provided in this section within 180 days after the effective date of the act, unless the act provides otherwise. 

(c)No statutory provision shall be delayed in its implementation pending an agency's adoption of 

implementing rules unless there is an express statutory provision prohibiting its application until the adoption 

of implementing rules. 

(d)In adopting rules, all agencies must, among the alternative approaches to any regulatory objective and 

to the extent allowed by law, choose the alternative that does not impose regulatory costs on the regulated 

person, county, or city which could be reduced by the adoption of less costly alternatives that substantially 

accomplish the statutory objectives. 

(e)No agency has inherent rulemaking authority, nor has any agency authority to establish penalties for 

violation of a rule unless the Legislature, when establishing a penalty, specifically provides that the penalty 



applies to rules. 

(f)An agency may adopt ruLes authorized by Law and necessary to the proper implementation of a statute 

prior to the effective date of the statute, but the rules may not be effective untiL the statute upon which they 

are based is effective. An agency may not adopt retroactive rules, including retroactive rules intended to 

clarify existing law, unLess that power is expressly authorized by statute. 

(g)Each rule adopted shaLL contain only one subject. 

(h)In rulemaking proceedings, the agency may recognize any materiaL which may be judiciaLLy noticed, 

and it may provide that materials so recognized be incorporated into the record of the proceeding. Before the 

record of any proceeding is completed, all parties shall be provided a list of these materiaLs and given a 

reasonable opportunity to examine them and offer written comments or written rebuttaL. 

(i)1 .A rule may incorporate materiaL by reference but only as the materiaL exists on the date the rule is 

adopted. For purposes of the rule, changes in the material are not effective unLess the ruLe is amended to 

incorporate the changes. 

2.An agency rule that incorporates by specific reference another rule of that agency automaticaLLy 

incorporates subsequent amendments to the referenced rule unless a contrary intent is cLearLy indicated in 

the referencing ruLe. A notice of amendments to a rule that has been incorporated by specific reference in 

other rules of that agency must expLain the effect of those amendments on the referencing ruLes. 

3.In rules adopted after December 31, 2010, materiaL may not be incorporated by reference unless: 

a.The material has been submitted in the prescribed electronic format to the Department of State and 

the full text of the material can be made availabLe for free public access through an eLectronic hyperlink from 

the rule making the reference in the Florida Administrative Code; or 

b.The agency has determined that posting the material on the Internet for purposes of public 

examination and inspection wouLd constitute a violation of federal copyright law, in which case a statement to 

that effect, aLong with the address of locations at the Department of State and the agency at which the 

material is availabLe for public inspection and examination, must be included in the notice required by 

subparagraph (3)(a)1. 

4.A rule may not be amended by reference only. Amendments must set out the amended rule in full in 

the same manner as required by the State Constitution for Laws. 

5.Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this section, when an adopted ruLe of the Department of 

Environmental Protection or a water management district is incorporated by reference in the other agency's 

rule to implement a provision of part IV of chapter 373, subsequent amendments to the rule are not effective 

as to the incorporating ruLe unLess the agency incorporating by reference notifies the committee and the 

Department of State of its intent to adopt the subsequent amendment, pubLishes notice of such intent in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly, and files with the Department of State a copy of the amended rule 



incorporated by reference. Changes in the rule incorporated by reference are effective as to the other agency 

20 days after the date of the pubLished notice and fiLing with the Department of State. The Department of 

State shall amend the history note of the incorporating rule to show the effective date of such change. Any 

substantially affected person may, within 14 days after the date of publication of the notice of intent in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly, file an objection to rulemaking with the agency. The objection shall specify 

the portions of the rule incorporated by reference to which the person objects and the reasons for the 

objection. The agency shaLl not have the authority under this subparagraph to adopt those portions of the rule 

specified in such objection. The agency shaLL publish notice of the objection and of its action in response in 

the next avaiLable issue of the FLorida Administrative Weekly. 

6.The Department of State may adopt by ruLe requirements for incorporating materiaLs pursuant to this 

paragraph. 

(j)A rule published in the FLorida Administrative Code must be indexed by the Department of State within 

90 days after the ruLe is fiLed. The Department of State shall by ruLe estabLish procedures for indexing rules. 

(k)An agency head may delegate the authority to initiate rule development under subsection (2); 

however, rulemaking responsibilities of an agency head under subparagraph (3)(a)1., subparagraph (3)(e)1., or 

subparagraph (3)(e)6. may not be deLegated or transferred. 

(2)RULE DEVELOPMENT; WORKSHOPS; N EGOTIATED RULEMAKING.— 

(a)Except when the intended action is the repeaL of a rule, agencies shaLl provide notice of the 

development of proposed rules by publication of a notice of rule development in the Florida Administrative 

Weekly before providing notice of a proposed rule as required by paragraph (3)(a). The notice of ruLe 

development shall indicate the subject area to be addressed by rule development, provide a short, plain 

explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed rule, cite the specific LegaL authority for the proposed 

rule, and include the preliminary text of the proposed rules, if available, or a statement of how a person may 

promptly obtain, without cost, a copy of any preliminary draft, if available. 

(b)All rules should be drafted in readabLe language. The language is readabLe if: 

1 .It avoids the use of obscure words and unnecessarily long or complicated constructions; and 

2.It avoids the use of unnecessary technical or specialized language that is understood onLy by members 

of particular trades or professions. 

(c)An agency may hold pubLic workshops for purposes of ruLe development. An agency must hold public 

workshops, including workshops in various regions of the state or the agency's service area, for purposes of 

rule development if requested in writing by any affected person, unless the agency head explains in writing 

why a workshop is unnecessary. The expLanation is not final agency action subject to review pursuant to ss. 

120.569 and 120.57. The failure to provide the expLanation when required may be a material error in 

procedure pursuant to s. 120.56(1)(c). When a workshop or public hearing is held, the agency must ensure 



that the persons responsible for preparing the proposed rule are available to explain the agency's proposal 

and to respond to questions or comments regarding the rule being deveLoped. The workshop may be 

facilitated or mediated by a neutraL third person, or the agency may empLoy other types of dispute resoLution 

alternatives for the workshop that are appropriate for ruLe development. Notice of a rule deveLopment 

workshop shall be by publication in the FLorida Administrative Weekly not less than 14 days prior to the date 

on which the workshop is scheduled to be held and shall indicate the subject area which wilL be addressed; 

the agency contact person; and the place, date, and time of the workshop. 

(d)1 .An agency may use negotiated ruLemaking in developing and adopting rules. The agency should 

consider the use of negotiated ruLemaking when complex rules are being drafted or strong opposition to the 

rules is anticipated. The agency shouLd consider, but is not limited to considering, whether a baLanced 

committee of interested persons who wiLl negotiate in good faith can be assembLed, whether the agency is 

willing to support the work of the negotiating committee, and whether the agency can use the group 

consensus as the basis for its proposed ruLe. Negotiated rulemaking uses a committee of designated 

representatives to draft a mutuaLLy acceptabLe proposed rule. 

2.An agency that chooses to use the negotiated rulemaking process described in this paragraph shaLL 

publish in the FLorida Administrative WeekLy a notice of negotiated rulemaking that incLudes a listing of the 

representative groups that will be invited to participate in the negotiated rulemaking process. Any person who 

believes that his or her interest is not adequately represented may appLy to participate within 30 days after 

publication of the notice. ALL meetings of the negotiating committee shalL be noticed and open to the public 

pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. The negotiating committee shaLL be chaired by a neutraL facilitator 

or mediator. 

3.The agency's decision to use negotiated ruLemaking, its selection of the representative groups, and 

approval or denial of an application to participate in the negotiated rulemaking process are not agency action. 

Nothing in this subparagraph is intended to affect the rights of an affected person to chalLenge a proposed 

rule developed under this paragraph in accordance with s. 120.56(2). 

(3)ADOPTION PROCEDURES.— 

(a)Notices. 

1 .Prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeaL of any rule other than an emergency rule, an agency, 

upon approval of the agency head, shall give notice of its intended action, setting forth a short, pLain 

explanation of the purpose and effect of the proposed action; the fuLl text of the proposed ruLe or amendment 

and a summary thereof; a reference to the grant of rulemaking authority pursuant to which the ruLe is 

adopted; and a reference to the section or subsection of the Florida Statutes or the Laws of Florida being 

implemented or interpreted. The notice must include a summary of the agency's statement of the estimated 

regulatory costs, if one has been prepared, based on the factors set forth in s. 120.541 (2); a statement that 



any person who wishes to provide the agency with information regarding the statement of estimated 

regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative as provided by s. 120.541(1), 

must do so in writing within 21 days after pubLication of the notice; and a statement as to whether, based on 

the statement of the estimated reguLatory costs or other information expressly relied upon and described by 

the agency if no statement of reguLatory costs is required, the proposed ruLe is expected to require Legislative 

ratification pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). The notice must state the procedure for requesting a pubLic hearing on 

the proposed rule. Except when the intended action is the repeal of a rule, the notice must include a 

reference both to the date on which and to the pLace where the notice of ruLe development that is required 

by subsection (2) appeared. 

2.The notice shaLL be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly not Less than 28 days prior to the 

intended action. The proposed ruLe shaLl be avaiLable for inspection and copying by the pubLic at the time of 

the publication of notice. 

3.The notice shaLL be maiLed to aLL persons named in the proposed rule and to all persons who, at Least 14 

days prior to such mailing, have made requests of the agency for advance notice of its proceedings. The 

agency shall also give such notice as is prescribed by rule to those particuLar classes of persons to whom the 

intended action is directed. 

4.The adopting agency shaLL file with the committee, at least 21 days prior to the proposed adoption 

date, a copy of each rule it proposes to adopt; a copy of any material incorporated by reference in the rule; a 

detailed written statement of the facts and circumstances justifying the proposed ruLe; a copy of any 

statement of estimated reguLatory costs that has been prepared pursuant to s. 120.541; a statement of the 

extent to which the proposed rule reLates to federaL standards or rules on the same subject; and the notice 

required by subparagraph 1. 

(b)Special matters to be considered in rule adoption.— 

1 .Statement of estimated regulatory costs.—Before the adoption, amendment, or repeaL of any rule other 

than an emergency ruLe, an agency is encouraged to prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs of the 

proposed ruLe, as provided by s. 120.541. However, an agency must prepare a statement of estimated 

regulatory costs of the proposed rule, as provided by s. 120.541, if: 

a.The proposed rule will have an adverse impact on small business; or 

b.The proposed rule is likely to directly or indirectly increase reguLatory costs in excess of $200,000 in 

the aggregate in this state within 1 year after the implementation of the ruLe. 

2.Small businesses, small counties, and small cities.— 

a.Each agency, before the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule, shaLL consider the impact of the 

rule on small businesses as defined by s. 288.703 and the impact of the rule on small counties or smaLl cities 

as defined by s. 120.52. Whenever practicable, an agency shall tier its rules to reduce disproportionate 



impacts on small businesses, small counties, or small cities to avoid regulating small businesses, small 

counties, or small cities that do not contribute significantly to the problem the rule is designed to address. An 

agency may define "small business" to include businesses employing more than 200 persons, may define 

"small county" to include those with populations of more than 75,000, and may define "small city" to include 

those with populations of more than 10,000, if it finds that such a definition is necessary to adapt a rule to 

the needs and problems of small businesses, small counties, or small cities. The agency shall consider each of 

the following methods for reducing the impact of the proposed rule on small businesses, small counties, and 

small cities, or any combination of these entities: 

(I)Establishing less stringent compliance or reporting requirements in the rule. 

(II)Establishing less stringent schedules or deadlines in the rule for compliance or reporting requirements. 

(III)Consolidating or simplifying the rule's compliance or reporting requirements. 

(IV)Establishing performance standards or best management practices to replace design or operational 

standards in the rule. 

(V)Exempting small businesses, small counties, or small cities from any or all requirements of the rule. 

b.(I)If the agency determines that the proposed action will affect small businesses as defined by the 

agency as provided in sub-subparagraph a., the agency shall send written notice of the rule to the rules 

ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor at least 28 days before the intended action. 

(II)Each agency shall adopt those regulatory alternatives offered by the rules ombudsman in the Executive 

Office of the Governor and provided to the agency no later than 21 days after the council's receipt of the 

written notice of the rule which it finds are feasible and consistent with the stated objectives of the proposed 

rule and which would reduce the impact on small businesses. When regulatory alternatives are offered by the 

rules ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor, the 90-day period for filing the rule in subparagraph 

(e)2. is extended for a period of 21 days. 

(III)If an agency does not adopt all alternatives offered pursuant to this sub-subparagraph, it shall, before 

rule adoption or amendment and pursuant to subparagraph (d)1., file a detailed written statement with the 

committee explaining the reasons for failure to adopt such alternatives. Within 3 working days after the filing 

of such notice, the agency shall send a copy of such notice to the rules ombudsman in the Executive Office of 

the Governor. 

(c)Hearings. 

1 .If the intended action concerns any rule other than one relating exclusively to procedure or practice, 

the agency shall, on the request of any affected person received within 21 days after the date of publication 

of the notice of intended agency action, give affected persons an opportunity to present evidence and 

argument on all issues under consideration. The agency may schedule a public hearing on the rule and, if 

requested by any affected person, shall schedule a public hearing on the rule. When a public hearing is held, 



the agency must ensure that staff are available to explain the agency's proposal and to respond to questions 

or comments regarding the rule. If the agency head is a board or other collegial body created under s. 

20.165(4) or s. 20.43(3)(g), and one or more requested public hearings is scheduLed, the board or other 

collegial body shall conduct at Least one of the public hearings itseLf and may not delegate this responsibility 

without the consent of those persons requesting the public hearing. Any material pertinent to the issues under 

consideration submitted to the agency within 21 days after the date of publication of the notice or submitted 

to the agency between the date of publication of the notice and the end of the final public hearing shall be 

considered by the agency and made a part of the record of the rulemaking proceeding. 

2.Rulemaking proceedings shaLL be governed solely by the provisions of this section unless a person timeLy 

asserts that the person's substantiaL interests will be affected in the proceeding and affirmatively 

demonstrates to the agency that the proceeding does not provide adequate opportunity to protect those 

interests. If the agency determines that the rulemaking proceeding is not adequate to protect the person's 

interests, it shaLl suspend the ruLemaking proceeding and convene a separate proceeding under the provisions 

of ss. 120.569 and 120.57. SimiLarLy situated persons may be requested to join and participate in the separate 

proceeding. Upon conclusion of the separate proceeding, the rulemaking proceeding shalL be resumed. 

(d)Modification or withdrawal of proposed rules.— 

1 .After the finaL pubLic hearing on the proposed rule, or after the time for requesting a hearing has 

expired, if the rule has not been changed from the rule as previously filed with the committee, or contains 

only technical changes, the adopting agency shaLl file a notice to that effect with the committee at least 7 

days prior to filing the rule for adoption. Any change, other than a technical change that does not affect the 

substance of the rule, must be supported by the record of pubLic hearings held on the ruLe, must be in 

response to written material submitted to the agency within 21 days after the date of pubLication of the 

notice of intended agency action or submitted to the agency between the date of publication of the notice 

and the end of the finaL pubLic hearing, or must be in response to a proposed objection by the committee. In 

addition, when any change is made in a proposed ruLe, other than a technical change, the adopting agency 

shall provide a copy of a notice of change by certified mail or actual delivery to any person who requests it in 

writing no later than 21 days after the notice required in paragraph (a). The agency shaLl file the notice of 

change with the committee, aLong with the reasons for the change, and provide the notice of change to 

persons requesting it, at least 21 days prior to fiLing the rule for adoption. The notice of change shall be 

published in the FLorida Administrative WeekLy at least 21 days prior to filing the ruLe for adoption. This 

subparagraph does not appLy to emergency ruLes adopted pursuant to subsection (4). 

2.After the notice required by paragraph (a) and prior to adoption, the agency may withdraw the rule in 

whole or in part. 

3.After adoption and before the rule becomes effective, a rule may be modified or withdrawn onLy in the 



following circumstances: 

a.When the committee objects to the rule; 

b.When a final order, which is not subject to further appeal, is entered in a rule chaLlenge brought 

pursuant to s. 120.56 after the date of adoption but before the rule becomes effective pursuant to 

subparagraph (e)6.; 

c.If the rule requires ratification, when more than 90 days have passed since the ruLe was fiLed for 

adoption without the LegisLature ratifying the ruLe, in which case the rule may be withdrawn but may not be 

modified; or 

d.When the committee notifies the agency that an objection to the rule is being considered, in which 

case the rule may be modified to extend the effective date by not more than 60 days. 

4.The agency shall give notice of its decision to withdraw or modify a rule in the first availabLe issue of 

the publication in which the original notice of ruLemaking was pubLished, shaLl notify those persons described 

in subparagraph (a)3. in accordance with the requirements of that subparagraph, and shaLL notify the 

Department of State if the rule is required to be filed with the Department of State. 

5.After a rule has become effective, it may be repealed or amended only through the rulemaking 

procedures specified in this chapter. 

(e)Filing for final adoption; effective date.— 

1 .If the adopting agency is required to publish its rules in the FLorida Administrative Code, the agency, 

upon approval of the agency head, shall fiLe with the Department of State three certified copies of the rule it 

proposes to adopt; one copy of any materiaL incorporated by reference in the ruLe, certified by the agency; a 

summary of the rule; a summary of any hearings held on the rule; and a detaiLed written statement of the 

facts and circumstances justifying the rule. Agencies not required to publish their rules in the Florida 

Administrative Code shalL file one certified copy of the proposed rule, and the other material required by this 

subparagraph, in the office of the agency head, and such rules shall be open to the pubLic. 

2.A rule may not be fiLed for adoption Less than 28 days or more than 90 days after the notice required by 

paragraph (a), untiL 21 days after the notice of change required by paragraph (d), until 14 days after the final 

public hearing, until 21 days after a statement of estimated reguLatory costs required under s. 120.541 has 

been provided to all persons who submitted a lower cost regulatory alternative and made available to the 

public, or until the administrative Law judge has rendered a decision under s. 120.56(2), whichever applies. 

When a required notice of change is published prior to the expiration of the time to fiLe the ruLe for adoption, 

the period during which a ruLe must be filed for adoption is extended to 45 days after the date of publication. 

If notice of a public hearing is published prior to the expiration of the time to fiLe the ruLe for adoption, the 

period during which a rule must be fiLed for adoption is extended to 45 days after adjournment of the final 

hearing on the rule, 21 days after receipt of alL material authorized to be submitted at the hearing, or 21 days 



after receipt of the transcript, if one is made, whichever is latest. The term "pubLic hearing" incLudes any 

public meeting held by any agency at which the rule is considered. If a petition for an administrative 

determination under s. 120.56(2) is filed, the period during which a rule must be filed for adoption is 

extended to 60 days after the administrative law judge files the finaL order with the clerk or untiL 60 days 

after subsequent judicial review is compLete. 

3.At the time a rule is fiLed, the agency shalL certify that the time limitations prescribed by this 

paragraph have been compLied with, that alL statutory rulemaking requirements have been met, and that 

there is no administrative determination pending on the rule. 

4.At the time a rule is fiLed, the committee shaLL certify whether the agency has responded in writing to 

all material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on behaLf of the committee. The 

department shaLl reject any ruLe that is not filed within the prescribed time Limits; that does not comply with 

all statutory rulemaking requirements and rules of the department; upon which an agency has not responded 

in writing to aLl materiaL and timeLy written inquiries or written comments; upon which an administrative 

determination is pending; or which does not incLude a statement of estimated reguLatory costs, if required. 

5.If a rule has not been adopted within the time Limits imposed by this paragraph or has not been 

adopted in compliance with aLl statutory ruLemaking requirements, the agency proposing the rule shaLL 

withdraw the rule and give notice of its action in the next available issue of the FLorida Administrative 

Weekly. 

6.The proposed rule shall be adopted on being fiLed with the Department of State and become effective 

20 days after being fiLed, on a Later date specified in the notice required by subparagraph (a)1., on a date 

required by statute, or upon ratification by the Legislature pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). Rules not required to be 

fiLed with the Department of State shall become effective when adopted by the agency head, on a later date 

specified by rule or statute, or upon ratification by the LegisLature pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). If the committee 

notifies an agency that an objection to a rule is being considered, the agency may postpone the adoption of 

the rule to accommodate review of the rule by the committee. When an agency postpones adoption of a rule 

to accommodate review by the committee, the 90-day period for fiLing the rule is tolled untiL the committee 

notifies the agency that it has completed its review of the rule. 

For the purposes of this paragraph, the term "administrative determination" does not include subsequent 

judicial review. 

(4)EMERGENCY RULES.— 

(a)If an agency finds that an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or weLfare requires 

emergency action, the agency may adopt any ruLe necessitated by the immediate danger. The agency may 

adopt a rule by any procedure which is fair under the circumstances if: 

1 .The procedure provides at Least the procedural protection given by other statutes, the State 



Constitution, or the United States Constitution. 

2.The agency takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency 

procedure. 

3.The agency publishes in writing at the time of, or prior to, its action the specific facts and reasons for 

finding an immediate danger to the public health, safety, or welfare and its reasons for concluding that the 

procedure used is fair under the circumstances. In any event, notice of emergency rules, other than those of 

educational units or units of government with jurisdiction in only one or a part of one county, including the 

full text of the rules, shall be published in the first available issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly and 

provided to the committee along with any material incorporated by reference in the rules. The agency's 

findings of immediate danger, necessity, and procedural fairness shall be judicially reviewable. 

(b)Rules pertaining to the public health, safety, or welfare shall include rules pertaining to perishable 

agricultural commodities or rules pertaining to the interpretation and implementation of the requirements of 

chapters 97-102 and chapter 105 of the Election Code. 

(c)An emergency rule adopted under this subsection shall not be effective for a period longer than 90 

days and shall not be renewable, except when the agency has initiated rulemaking to adopt rules addressing 

the subject of the emergency rule and either: 

1 .A challenge to the proposed rules has been filed and remains pending; or 

2.The proposed rules are awaiting ratification by the Legislature pursuant to s. 120.541 (3). 

Nothing in this paragraph prohibits the agency from adopting a rule or rules identical to the emergency rule 

through the rulemaking procedures specified in subsection (3). 

(d)Subject to applicable constitutional and statutory provisions, an emergency rule becomes effective 

immediately on filing, or on a date less than 20 days thereafter if specified in the rule, if the adopting agency 

finds that such effective date is necessary because of immediate danger to the public health, safety, or 

welfare. 

(5)UNIFORM RULES.— 

(a)1.By July 1, 1997, the Administration Commission shall adopt one or more sets of uniform rules of 

procedure which shall be reviewed by the committee and filed with the Department of State. Agencies must 

comply with the uniform rules by July 1, 1998. The uniform rules shall establish procedures that comply with 

the requirements of this chapter. On filing with the department, the uniform rules shall be the rules of 

procedure for each agency subject to this chapter unless the Administration Commission grants an exception 

to the agency under this subsection. 

2.An agency may seek exceptions to the uniform rules of procedure by filing a petition with the 

Administration Commission. The Administration Commission shall approve exceptions to the extent necessary 

to implement other statutes, to the extent necessary to conform to any requirement imposed as a condition 



precedent to receipt of federal funds or to permit persons in this state to receive tax benefits under federal 

law, or as required for the most efficient operation of the agency as determined by the Administration 

Commission. The reasons for the exceptions shall be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

3.Agency rules that provide exceptions to the uniform rules shall not be filed with the department unless 

the Administration Commission has approved the exceptions. Each agency that adopts rules that provide 

exceptions to the uniform rules shall publish a separate chapter in the Florida Administrative Code that 

delineates clearly the provisions of the agency's rules that provide exceptions to the uniform rules and 

specifies each alternative chosen from among those authorized by the uniform rules. Each chapter shall be 

organized in the same manner as the uniform rules. 

(b)The uniform rules of procedure adopted by the commission pursuant to this subsection shall include, 

but are not limited to: 

1 .Uniform rules for the scheduling of public meetings, hearings, and workshops. 

2.Uniform rules for use by each state agency that provide procedures for conducting public meetings, 

hearings, and workshops, and for taking evidence, testimony, and argument at such public meetings, hearings, 

and workshops, in person and by means of communications media technology. The rules shall provide that all 

evidence, testimony, and argument presented shall be afforded equal consideration, regardless of the method 

of communication. If a public meeting, hearing, or workshop is to be conducted by means of communications 

media technology, or if attendance may be provided by such means, the notice shall so state. The notice for 

public meetings, hearings, and workshops utilizing communications media technology shall state how persons 

interested in attending may do so and shall name locations, if any, where communications media technology 

facilities will be available. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to diminish the right to inspect public 

records under chapter 119. Limiting points of access to public meetings, hearings, and workshops subject to 

the provisions of s. 286.011 to places not normally open to the public shall be presumed to violate the right of 

access of the public, and any official action taken under such circumstances is void and of no effect. Other 

laws relating to public meetings, hearings, and workshops, including penal and remedial provisions, shall apply 

to public meetings, hearings, and workshops conducted by means of communications media technology, and 

shall be liberally construed in their application to such public meetings, hearings, and workshops. As used in 

this subparagraph, "communications media technology" means the electronic transmission of printed matter, 

audio, full-motion video, freeze-frame video, compressed video, and digital video by any method available. 

3.Uniform rules of procedure for the filing of notice of protests and formal written protests. The 

Administration Commission may prescribe the form and substantive provisions of a required bond. 

4.Uniform rules of procedure for the filing of petitions for administrative hearings pursuant to s. 120.569 

or s. 120.57. Such rules shall require the petition to include: 

a.The identification of the petitioner, including the petitioner's e-mail address, if any, for the 



transmittal of subsequent documents by eLectronic means. 

b.A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the agency's action or proposed action. 

c.An explanation of how the petitioner's substantial interests are or will be affected by the action or 

proposed action. 

d.A statement of aLl materiaL facts disputed by the petitioner or a statement that there are no disputed 

facts. 

e.A statement of the uLtimate facts aLLeged, incLuding a statement of the specific facts the petitioner 

contends warrant reversaL or modification of the agency's proposed action. 

f.A statement of the specific rules or statutes that the petitioner contends require reversal or 

modification of the agency's proposed action, incLuding an explanation of how the alLeged facts reLate to the 

specific rules or statutes. 

g.A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action petitioner wishes the 

agency to take with respect to the proposed action. 

5.Uniform rules for the filing of request for administrative hearing by a respondent in agency 

enforcement and discipLinary actions. Such rules shall require a request to incLude: 

a.The name, address, e-mail address, and telephone number of the party making the request and the 

name, address, and teLephone number of the party's counsel or qualified representative upon whom service of 

pleadings and other papers shaLL be made; 

b.A statement that the respondent is requesting an administrative hearing and disputes the material facts 

alleged by the petitioner, in which case the respondent shall identify those materiaL facts that are in dispute, 

or that the respondent is requesting an administrative hearing and does not dispute the material facts alleged 

by the petitioner; and 

c.A reference by file number to the administrative complaint that the party has received from the agency 

and the date on which the agency pLeading was received. 

The agency may provide an eLection-of-rights form for the respondent's use in requesting a hearing, so long 

as any form provided by the agency caLls for the information in sub-subparagraphs a. through c. and does not 

impose any additional requirements on a respondent in order to request a hearing, unLess such requirements 

are specifically authorized by Law. 

6.Uniform rules of procedure for the filing and prompt disposition of petitions for decLaratory 

statements. The ruLes shaLL aLso describe the contents of the notices that must be pubLished in the Florida 

Administrative Weekly under s. 120.565, incLuding any applicable time limit for the filing of petitions to 

intervene or petitions for administrative hearing by persons whose substantial interests may be affected. 

7.Provision of a method by which each agency head shall provide a description of the agency's 

organization and generaL course of its operations. The rules shall require that the statement concerning the 



agency's organization and operations be published on the agency's website. 

8.Uniform rules establishing procedures for granting or denying petitions for variances and waivers 

pursuant to s. 120.542. 

(6)ADOPTION OF FEDERAL STANDARDS.—Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this section, in the 

pursuance of state implementation, operation, or enforcement of federal programs, an agency is empowered 

to adopt rules substantiveLy identicaL to reguLations adopted pursuant to federal law, in accordance with the 

following procedures: 

(a)The agency shaLL pubLish notice of intent to adopt a rule pursuant to this subsection in the FLorida 

Administrative Weekly at least 21 days prior to fiLing the rule with the Department of State. The agency shall 

provide a copy of the notice of intent to adopt a rule to the committee at Least 21 days prior to the date of 

fiLing with the Department of State. Prior to fiLing the rule with the Department of State, the agency shall 

consider any written comments received within 14 days after the date of pubLication of the notice of intent to 

adopt a rule. The ruLe shaLl be adopted upon filing with the Department of State. Substantive changes from 

the rules as noticed shall require repubLishing of notice as required in this subsection. 

(b)Any rule adopted pursuant to this subsection shalL become effective upon the date designated by the 

agency in the notice of intent to adopt a rule; however, no such rule shaLL become effective earlier than the 

effective date of the substantiveLy identicaL federal regulation. 

(c)Any substantially affected person may, within 14 days after the date of pubLication of the notice of 

intent to adopt a ruLe, file an objection to rulemaking with the agency. The objection shaLl specify the 

portions of the proposed rule to which the person objects and the specific reasons for the objection. The 

agency shall not proceed pursuant to this subsection to adopt those portions of the proposed ruLe specified in 

an objection, unLess the agency deems the objection to be frivolous, but may proceed pursuant to subsection 

(3). An objection to a proposed ruLe, which rule in no material respect differs from the requirements of the 

federal regulation upon which it is based, is deemed to be frivolous. 

(d)Whenever any federal reguLation adopted as an agency rule pursuant to this subsection is declared 

invalid or is withdrawn, revoked, repealed, remanded, or suspended, the agency shall, within 60 days 

thereafter, publish a notice of repeal of the substantively identicaL agency rule in the FLorida Administrative 

Weekly. Such repeaL is effective upon pubLication of the notice. Whenever any federal reguLation adopted as 

an agency ruLe pursuant to this subsection is substantially amended, the agency may adopt the amended 

regulation as a rule. If the amended regulation is not adopted as a rule within 180 days after the effective 

date of the amended reguLation, the originaL ruLe is deemed repeaLed and the agency shalL pubLish a notice of 

repeal of the originaL agency ruLe in the next available Florida Administrative WeekLy. 

(e)Whenever aLl or part of any ruLe proposed for adoption by the agency is substantiveLy identicaL to a 

regulation adopted pursuant to federal law, such rule shall be written in a manner so that the rule specifically 



references the regulation whenever possibLe. 

(7)PETITION TO INITIATE RULEMAKING.— 

(a)Any person regulated by an agency or having substantial interest in an agency rule may petition an 

agency to adopt, amend, or repeal a rule or to provide the minimum public information required by this 

chapter. The petition shaLL specify the proposed rule and action requested. Not later than 30 caLendar days 

following the date of filing a petition, the agency shall initiate rulemaking proceedings under this chapter, 

otherwise comply with the requested action, or deny the petition with a written statement of its reasons for 

the denial. 

(b)If the petition fiLed under this subsection is directed to an unadopted ruLe, the agency shaLl, not later 

than 30 days following the date of filing a petition, initiate rulemaking, or provide notice in the FLorida 

Administrative Weekly that the agency will hold a public hearing on the petition within 30 days after 

publication of the notice. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the comments of the pubLic 

directed to the agency rule which has not been adopted by the ruLemaking procedures or requirements of this 

chapter, its scope and application, and to consider whether the public interest is served adequately by the 

application of the rule on a case-by-case basis, as contrasted with its adoption by the rulemaking procedures 

or requirements set forth in this chapter. 

(c)Within 30 days foLLowing the public hearing provided for by paragraph (b), if the agency does not 

initiate rulemaking or otherwise comply with the requested action, the agency shall pubLish in the FLorida 

Administrative Weekly a statement of its reasons for not initiating ruLemaking or otherwise compLying with the 

requested action, and of any changes it wilL make in the scope or application of the unadopted ruLe. The 

agency shall file the statement with the committee. The committee shaLl forward a copy of the statement to 

the substantive committee with primary oversight jurisdiction of the agency in each house of the LegisLature. 

The committee or the committee with primary oversight jurisdiction may hold a hearing directed to the 

statement of the agency. The committee hoLding the hearing may recommend to the Legislature the 

introduction of legislation making the rule a statutory standard or limiting or otherwise modifying the 

authority of the agency. 

(8)RULEMAKING RECORD.—In alL ruLemaking proceedings the agency shall compile a ruLemaking record. 

The record shall include, if applicable, copies of: 

(a)All notices given for the proposed ruLe. 

(b)Any statement of estimated reguLatory costs for the rule. 

(c)A written summary of hearings on the proposed ruLe. 

(d)The written comments and responses to written comments as required by this section and s. 120.541. 

(e)All notices and findings made under subsection (4). 

(f)AIL materials filed by the agency with the committee under subsection (3). 



(g)A1l materials filed with the Department of State under subsection (3). 

(h)A11 written inquiries from standing committees of the Legislature concerning the rule. 

Each state agency shall retain the record of rulemaking as long as the rule is in effect. When a rule is no 

longer in effect, the record may be destroyed pursuant to the records-retention schedule developed under s. 

257.36(6). 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 3, ch. 75-191; s. 3, ch. 76-131; ss. 1, 2, ch. 76-276; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 13, ch. 77-290; s. 3, ch. 

77-453; s. 2, ch. 78-28; s. 2, ch. 78-425; s. 7, ch. 79-3; s. 3, ch. 79-299; s. 69, ch. 79-400; s. 5, ch. 80-391; s. 1, ch. 81-309; s. 2, 

ch. 83-351; s. 1, ch. 84-173; s. 2, ch. 84-203; s. 7, ch. 85-104; s. 1, ch. 86-30; s. 3, ch. 87-385; s. 36, ch. 90-302; ss. 2, 4, 7, ch. 

92-166; s. 63, ch. 93-187; s. 758, ch. 95-147; s. 6, ch. 95-295; s. 10, ch. 96-159; s. 6, ch. 96-320; s. 9, ch. 96-370; s. 3, ch. 97- 

176; s. 3, ch. 98-200; s. 4, ch. 99-379; s. 9, ch. 2001 -75; s. 2, ch. 2003-94; s. 50, ch. 2005-278; s. 3, ch. 2006-82; ss. 5, 6, ch. 

2008-104; s. 7, ch. 2008-149; s. 4, ch. 2009-187; ss. 1, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9-A, 2010 SpeciaL Session A; s. 49, ch. 2011-142; s. 8, 

ch. 2011-208; s. 1, ch. 2011-225; s. 2, ch. 2012-27; s. 1, ch. 2012-63. 

Note.—The word "council's" refers to the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council. Section 5, ch. 2012- 

27, repealed s. 288.7001, which created the council, and other provisions in ch. 201 2-27 reassigned the 

council's duties to the rules ombudsman in the Executive Office of the Governor. 

120.54lStatement of estimated regulatory costs.— 

(1)(a)Within 21 days after publication of the notice required under s. 120.54(3)(a), a substantially 

affected person may submit to an agency a good faith written proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative 

to a proposed rule which substantially accomplishes the objectives of the law being implemented. The 

proposal may include the alternative of not adopting any rule if the proposal explains how the lower costs and 

objectives of the law will be achieved by not adopting any rule. If such a proposal is submitted, the 90-day 

period for filing the rule is extended 21 days. Upon the submission of the lower cost regulatory alternative, 

the agency shall prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs as provided in subsection (2), or shall 

revise its prior statement of estimated regulatory costs, and either adopt the alternative or provide a 

statement of the reasons for rejecting the alternative in favor of the proposed rule. 

(b)If a proposed rule will have an adverse impact on small business or if the proposed rule is likely to 

directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs in excess of $200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after the 

implementation of the rule, the agency shall prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs as required by 

s. 120.54(3)(b). 

(c)The agency shall revise a statement of estimated regulatory costs if any change to the rule made 

under s. 120.54(3)(d) increases the regulatory costs of the rule. 

(d)At least 21 days before filing the rule for adoption, an agency that is required to revise a statement of 

estimated regulatory costs shall provide the statement to the person who submitted the lower cost regulatory 

alternative and to the committee and shall provide notice on the agency's website that it is available to the 



public. 

(e)Notwithstanding s. 120.56(1)(c), the failure of the agency to prepare a statement of estimated 

regulatory costs or to respond to a written Lower cost regulatory alternative as provided in this subsection is a 

material failure to follow the applicable ruLemaking procedures or requirements set forth in this chapter. 

(f)An agency's failure to prepare a statement of estimated regulatory costs or to respond to a written 

lower cost regulatory alternative may not be raised in a proceeding chaLLenging the validity of a rule pursuant 

to s. 120.52(8)(a) unless: 

1 .Raised in a petition filed no Later than 1 year after the effective date of the rule; and 

2.Raised by a person whose substantiaL interests are affected by the ruLe's regulatory costs. 

(g)A rule that is chalLenged pursuant to s. 120.52(8)(f) may not be declared invaLid unLess: 

1 .The issue is raised in an administrative proceeding within 1 year after the effective date of the rule; 

2.The challenge is to the agency's rejection of a lower cost regulatory alternative offered under 

paragraph (a) or s. 120.54(3)(b)2.b.; and 

3.The substantiaL interests of the person chalLenging the rule are materiaLLy affected by the rejection. 

(2)A statement of estimated reguLatory costs shalL include: 

(a)An economic anaLysis showing whether the rule directly or indirectly: 

1 .Is likely to have an adverse impact on economic growth, private sector job creation or employment, or 

private sector investment in excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of 

the rule; 

2.Is likely to have an adverse impact on business competitiveness, including the ability of persons doing 

business in the state to compete with persons doing business in other states or domestic markets, 

productivity, or innovation in excess of $1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the impLementation of 

the rule; or 

3.Is likely to increase regulatory costs, incLuding any transactional costs, in excess of $1 million in the 

aggregate within 5 years after the impLementation of the rule. 

(b)A good faith estimate of the number of individuals and entities LikeLy to be required to compLy with 

the rule, together with a generaL description of the types of individuals LikeLy to be affected by the rule. 

(c)A good faith estimate of the cost to the agency, and to any other state and LocaL government entities, 

of implementing and enforcing the proposed rule, and any anticipated effect on state or LocaL revenues. 

(d)A good faith estimate of the transactional costs likely to be incurred by individuals and entities, 

including local government entities, required to comply with the requirements of the ruLe. As used in this 

section, "transactional costs" are direct costs that are readily ascertainable based upon standard business 

practices, and incLude fiLing fees, the cost of obtaining a license, the cost of equipment required to be 

installed or used or procedures required to be employed in complying with the rule, additionaL operating costs 



incurred, the cost of monitoring and reporting, and any other costs necessary to comply with the rule. 

(e)An analysis of the impact on small businesses as defined by s. 288.703, and an analysis of the impact 

on small counties and smaLl cities as defined in s. 120.52. The impact anaLysis for smaLL businesses must 

include the basis for the agency's decision not to implement alternatives that wouLd reduce adverse impacts 

on small businesses. 

(f)Any additional information that the agency determines may be usefuL. 

(g)In the statement or revised statement, whichever applies, a description of any regulatory aLternatives 

submitted under paragraph (1 )(a) and a statement adopting the alternative or a statement of the reasons for 

rejecting the alternative in favor of the proposed rule. 

(3)If the adverse impact or regulatory costs of the rule exceed any of the criteria estabLished in 

paragraph (2)(a), the ruLe shaLL be submitted to the President of the Senate and Speaker of the House of 

Representatives no later than 30 days prior to the next regular legislative session, and the ruLe may not take 

effect until it is ratified by the Legislature. 

1 (4)This section does not appLy to the adoption of emergency rules pursuant to s. 120.54(4) or the 

adoption of federal standards pursuant to s. 120.54(6). 

History.—s. 11, ch. 96-159; s. 4, ch. 97-176; ss. 2, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9-A, 2010 Special Session A; s. 1, ch. 2011-222; s. 2, 

ch. 2011-225. 

Note.—As amended by s. 2, ch. 2011-225. For a description of multiple acts in the same session affecting a 

statutory provision, see preface to the Florida Statutes, "Statutory Construction." Subsection (4) was also 

amended by s. 1, ch. 2011-222, and that version reads: 

Subsection (4) (3) does not apply to the adoption of: 

Federal (a) standards pursuant to s. 120.54(6). 

Triennial (b) updates of and amendments to the Florida Building Code which are expressly authorized by s. 553.73. 

Triennial (c) updates of and amendments to the Florida Fire Prevention Code which are expressly authorized by s. 633.0215. 

120.542Variances and waivers.— 

(1 )Strict application of uniformly appLicabLe rule requirements can Lead to unreasonable, unfair, and 

unintended results in particular instances. The Legislature finds that it is appropriate in such cases to adopt a 

procedure for agencies to provide relief to persons subject to regulation. A pubLic empLoyee is not a person 

subject to regulation under this section for the purpose of petitioning for a variance or waiver to a rule that 

affects that pubLic empLoyee in his or her capacity as a public employee. Agencies are authorized to grant 

variances and waivers to requirements of their ruLes consistent with this section and with rules adopted under 

the authority of this section. An agency may limit the duration of any grant of a variance or waiver or 

otherwise impose conditions on the grant only to the extent necessary for the purpose of the underlying 

statute to be achieved. This section does not authorize agencies to grant variances or waivers to statutes or to 



rules required by the Federal Government for the agency's implementation or retention of any federaLly 

approved or delegated program, except as aLlowed by the program or when the variance or waiver is aLso 

approved by the appropriate agency of the Federal Government. This section is suppLemental to, and does not 

abrogate, the variance and waiver provisions in any other statute. 

(2)Variances and waivers shall be granted when the person subject to the rule demonstrates that the 

purpose of the underlying statute wilL be or has been achieved by other means by the person and when 

application of a rule would create a substantiaL hardship or would violate principles of fairness. For purposes 

of this section, "substantial hardship" means a demonstrated economic, technoLogical, LegaL, or other type of 

hardship to the person requesting the variance or waiver. For purposes of this section, "principles of fairness" 

are violated when the literaL appLication of a rule affects a particular person in a manner significantly 

different from the way it affects other simiLarly situated persons who are subject to the ruLe. 

(3)The Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the Administration Commission, shall adopt uniform ruLes of 

procedure pursuant to the requirements of s. 120.54(5) establishing procedures for granting or denying 

petitions for variances and waivers. The uniform ruLes shall include procedures for the granting, denying, or 

revoking of emergency and temporary variances and waivers. Such provisions may provide for expedited 

timeframes, waiver of or limited pubLic notice, and Limitations on comments on the petition in the case of 

such temporary or emergency variances and waivers. 

(4)Agencies shall advise persons of the remedies available through this section and shall provide copies of 

this section, the uniform ruLes on variances and waivers, and, if requested, the underLying statute, to persons 

who inquire about the possibiLity of reLief from rule requirements. 

(5)A person who is subject to regulation by an agency rule may file a petition with that agency, with a 

copy to the committee, requesting a variance or waiver from the agency's rule. In addition to any 

requirements mandated by the uniform rules, each petition shall specify: 

(a)The rule from which a variance or waiver is requested. 

(b)The type of action requested. 

(c)The specific facts that wouLd justify a waiver or variance for the petitioner. 

(d)The reason why the variance or the waiver requested would serve the purposes of the underLying 

statute. 

(6)Within 15 days after receipt of a petition for variance or waiver, an agency shall provide notice of the 

petition to the Department of State, which shall publish notice of the petition in the first avaiLable issue of 

the Florida Administrative Weekly. The notice shaLl contain the name of the petitioner, the date the petition 

was filed, the rule number and nature of the ruLe from which variance or waiver is sought, and an explanation 

of how a copy of the petition can be obtained. The uniform rules shall provide a means for interested persons 

to provide comments on the petition. 



(7)Except for requests for emergency variances or waivers, within 30 days after receipt of a petition for a 

variance or waiver, an agency shaLL review the petition and request submittal of aLL additional information 

that the agency is permitted by this section to require. Within 30 days after receipt of such additional 

information, the agency shall review it and may request only that information needed to clarify the additional 

information or to answer new questions raised by or directly related to the additional information. If the 

petitioner asserts that any request for additional information is not authorized by Law or by ruLe of the 

affected agency, the agency shalL proceed, at the petitioner's written request, to process the petition. 

(8)An agency shall grant or deny a petition for variance or waiver within 90 days after receipt of the 

original petition, the Last item of timeLy requested additional material, or the petitioner's written request to 

finish processing the petition. A petition not granted or denied within 90 days after receipt of a completed 

petition is deemed approved. A copy of the order granting or denying the petition shalL be filed with the 

committee and shaLL contain a statement of the relevant facts and reasons supporting the agency's action. 

The agency shall provide notice of the disposition of the petition to the Department of State, which shall 

publish the notice in the next avaiLabLe issue of the Florida Administrative WeekLy. The notice shalL contain 

the name of the petitioner, the date the petition was filed, the rule number and nature of the ruLe from 

which the waiver or variance is sought, a reference to the place and date of publication of the notice of the 

petition, the date of the order denying or approving the variance or waiver, the generaL basis for the agency 

decision, and an explanation of how a copy of the order can be obtained. The agency's decision to grant or 

deny the petition shaLl be supported by competent substantial evidence and is subject to ss. 120.569 and 

120.57. Any proceeding pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57 in regard to a variance or waiver shaLl be limited 

to the agency action on the request for the variance or waiver, except that a proceeding in regard to a 

variance or waiver may be consoLidated with any other proceeding authorized by this chapter. 

(9)Each agency shalL maintain a record of the type and disposition of each petition, incLuding temporary 

or emergency variances and waivers, filed pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 12, ch. 96-159; s. 5, ch. 97-176; s. 37, ch. 2010-102. 

I 20.545Committee review of agency rules.— 

(1 )As a legislative check on legisLativeLy created authority, the committee shaLl examine each proposed 

rule, except for those proposed rules exempted by s. 120.81 (1 )(e) and (2), and its accompanying material, and 

each emergency rule, and may examine any existing rule, for the purpose of determining whether: 

(a)The rule is an invaLid exercise of delegated legisLative authority. 

(b)The statutory authority for the rule has been repealed. 

(c)The rule reiterates or paraphrases statutory material. 

(d)The rule is in proper form. 

(e)The notice given prior to its adoption was sufficient to give adequate notice of the purpose and effect 



of the rule. 

(f)The rule is consistent with expressed legisLative intent pertaining to the specific provisions of law 

which the ruLe impLements. 

(g)The rule is necessary to accomplish the apparent or expressed objectives of the specific provision of 

law which the rule impLements. 

(h)The rule is a reasonable implementation of the Law as it affects the convenience of the general public 

or persons particularly affected by the rule. 

(i)The rule could be made Less compLex or more easily comprehensible to the general public. 

(j)The rule's statement of estimated reguLatory costs complies with the requirements of s. 120.541 and 

whether the rule does not impose reguLatory costs on the regulated person, county, or city which couLd be 

reduced by the adoption of Less costly aLternatives that substantially accomplish the statutory objectives. 

(k)The rule will require additionaL appropriations. 

(l)If the rule is an emergency ruLe, there exists an emergency justifying the adoption of such rule, the 

agency is within its statutory authority, and the rule was adopted in compLiance with the requirements and 

limitations of s. 120.54(4). 

(2)The committee may request from an agency such information as is reasonably necessary for 

examination of a ruLe as required by subsection (1). The committee shalL consuLt with LegisLative standing 

committees having jurisdiction over the subject areas. If the committee objects to a rule, the committee 

shall, within 5 days after the objection, certify that fact to the agency whose rule has been examined and 

include with the certification a statement detailing its objections with particularity. The committee shall 

notify the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President of the Senate of any objection to an 

agency rule concurrent with certification of that fact to the agency. Such notice shaLL incLude a copy of the 

rule and the statement detailing the committee's objections to the rule. 

(3)Within 30 days after receipt of the objection, if the agency is headed by an individuaL, or within 45 

days after receipt of the objection, if the agency is headed by a coLLegiaL body, the agency shaLL: 

(a)If the ruLe is not yet in effect: 

1 .File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(d) of onLy such modifications as are necessary to address the 

committee's objection; 

2.File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(d) of withdrawal of the rule; or 

3.Notify the committee in writing that it refuses to modify or withdraw the ruLe. 

(b)If the rule is in effect: 

1 .File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(a), without prior notice of rule development, to amend the ruLe to 

address the committee's objection; 

2.File notice pursuant to s. 120.54(3)(a) to repeal the rule; or 



3.Notify the committee in writing that the agency refuses to amend or repeaL the rule. 

(c)If the objection is to the statement of estimated regulatory costs: 

1 .Prepare a corrected statement of estimated regulatory costs, give notice of the availability of the 

corrected statement in the first avaiLabLe issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly, and file a copy of the 

corrected statement with the committee; or 

2.Notify the committee that it refuses to prepare a corrected statement of estimated regulatory costs. 

(4)Failure of the agency to respond to a committee objection to a rule that is not yet in effect within the 

time prescribed in subsection (3) constitutes withdrawal of the rule in its entirety. In this event, the 

committee shall notify the Department of State that the agency, by its failure to respond to a committee 

objection, has elected to withdraw the ruLe. Upon receipt of the committee's notice, the Department of State 

shall publish a notice to that effect in the next available issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. Upon 

publication of the notice, the ruLe shaLL be stricken from the files of the Department of State and the files of 

the agency. 

(5)Failure of the agency to respond to a committee objection to a rule that is in effect within the time 

prescribed in subsection (3) constitutes a refusaL to amend or repeal the rule. 

(6)Failure of the agency to respond to a committee objection to a statement of estimated regulatory 

costs within the time prescribed in subsection (3) constitutes a refusaL to prepare a corrected statement of 

estimated regulatory costs. 

(7)If the committee objects to a ruLe and the agency refuses to modify, amend, withdraw, or repeal the 

rule, the committee shaLL file with the Department of State a notice of the objection, detailing with 

particularity the committee's objection to the ruLe. The Department of State shaLL pubLish this notice in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly. If the ruLe is pubLished in the FLorida Administrative Code, a reference to the 

committee's objection and to the issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly in which the fuLl text thereof 

appears shall be recorded in a history note. 

(8)(a)If the committee objects to a rule, or portion of a rule, and the agency fails to initiate 

administrative action to modify, amend, withdraw, or repeal the rule consistent with the objection within 60 

days after the objection, or thereafter faiLs to proceed in good faith to complete such action, the committee 

may submit to the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives a 

recommendation that Legislation be introduced to address the committee's objection. 

(b)1 .If the committee votes to recommend the introduction of legislation to address the committee's 

objection, the committee shaLL, within 5 days after this determination, certify that fact to the agency whose 

rule or proposed rule has been examined. The committee may request that the agency temporariLy suspend 

the rule or suspend the adoption of the proposed rule, pending consideration of proposed legisLation during 

the next regular session of the LegisLature. 



2.Within 30 days after receipt of the certification, if the agency is headed by an individual, or within 45 

days after receipt of the certification, if the agency is headed by a colLegial body, the agency shaLL: 

a.Temporarily suspend the ruLe or suspend the adoption of the proposed rule; or 

b.Notify the committee in writing that the agency refuses to temporarily suspend the ruLe or suspend the 

adoption of the proposed rule. 

3.If the agency elects to temporariLy suspend the rule or suspend the adoption of the proposed rule, the 

agency shall give notice of the suspension in the Florida Administrative Weekly. The rule or the rule adoption 

process shall be suspended upon pubLication of the notice. An agency may not base any agency action on a 

suspended rule or suspended proposed ruLe, or portion of such rule, prior to expiration of the suspension. A 

suspended rule or suspended proposed ruLe, or portion of such rule, continues to be subject to administrative 

determination and judicial review as provided by Law. 

4.Failure of an agency to respond to committee certification within the time prescribed by subparagraph 

2. constitutes a refusaL to suspend the ruLe or to suspend the adoption of the proposed ruLe. 

(c)The committee shalL prepare proposed LegisLation to address the committee's objection in accordance 

with the ruLes of the Senate and the House of Representatives for prefiling and introduction in the next 

regular session of the Legislature. The proposed LegisLation shall be presented to the President of the Senate 

and the Speaker of the House of Representatives with the committee recommendation. 

(d)If proposed legislation addressing the committee's objection fails to become law, any temporary 

agency suspension shaLl expire. 

History.—s. 4, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 6, ch. 80-391; s. 3, ch. 81 -309; s. 4, ch. 87-385; s. 8, ch. 92-166; s. 20, ch. 95- 

280; s. 14, ch. 96-159; s. 16, ch. 2000-151; s. 18, ch. 2008-4; s. 7, ch. 2008-104. 

I 20.55Publication.— 

(1 )The Department of State shalL: 

(a)1 .Through a continuous revision and pubLication system, compile and pubLish eLectronicaLly, on an 

Internet website managed by the department, the "Florida Administrative Code." The Florida Administrative 

Code shall contain alL rules adopted by each agency, citing the grant of rulemaking authority and the specific 

law implemented pursuant to which each rule was adopted, all history notes as authorized in s. 120.545(7), 

complete indexes to all rules contained in the code, and any other materiaL required or authorized by law or 

deemed useful by the department. The eLectronic code shall display each rule chapter currently in effect in 

browse mode and allow full text search of the code and each rule chapter. The department may contract with 

a publishing firm for a printed pubLication; however, the department shall retain responsibiLity for the code as 

provided in this section. The eLectronic publication shaLL be the officiaL compiLation of the administrative ruLes 

of this state. The Department of State shalL retain the copyright over the FLorida Administrative Code. 

2.Rules general in form but applicable to only one schooL district, community college district, or county, 



or a part thereof, or state university rules relating to internal personneL or business and finance shall not be 

published in the FLorida Administrative Code. ExcLusion from publication in the Florida Administrative Code 

shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of such rules. 

3.At the beginning of the section of the code dealing with an agency that files copies of its rules with the 

department, the department shaLl publish the address and telephone number of the executive offices of each 

agency, the manner by which the agency indexes its rules, a listing of all rules of that agency excluded from 

publication in the code, and a statement as to where those rules may be inspected. 

4.Forms shall not be published in the Florida Administrative Code; but any form which an agency uses in 

its dealings with the pubLic, along with any accompanying instructions, shaLL be fiLed with the committee 

before it is used. Any form or instruction which meets the definition of "rule" provided in s. 120.52 shall be 

incorporated by reference into the appropriate ruLe. The reference shall specifically state that the form is 

being incorporated by reference and shall incLude the number, titLe, and effective date of the form and an 

explanation of how the form may be obtained. Each form created by an agency which is incorporated by 

reference in a rule notice of which is given under s. 120.54(3)(a) after December 31, 2007, must cLearly 

display the number, titLe, and effective date of the form and the number of the ruLe in which the form is 

incorporated. 

5.The department shall allow adopted rules and material incorporated by reference to be filed in 

electronic form as prescribed by department ruLe. When a rule is filed for adoption with incorporated material 

in electronic form, the department's publication of the Florida Administrative Code on its Internet website 

must contain a hyperlink from the incorporating reference in the ruLe directly to that material. The 

department may not allow hyperLinks from rules in the Florida Administrative Code to any material other than 

that filed with and maintained by the department, but may allow hyperLinks to incorporated material 

maintained by the department from the adopting agency's website or other sites. 

(b)Electronically publish on an Internet website managed by the department a continuous revision and 

publication entitLed the "Florida Administrative Register," which shaLl serve as the officiaL pubLication and 

must contain: 

1 .All notices required by s. 120.54(3)(a), showing the text of aLL ruLes proposed for consideration. 

2.All notices of public meetings, hearings, and workshops conducted in accordance with s. 120.525, 

including a statement of the manner in which a copy of the agenda may be obtained. 

3.A notice of each request for authorization to amend or repeal an existing uniform rule or for the 

adoption of new uniform rules. 

4.Notice of petitions for declaratory statements or administrative determinations. 

5.A summary of each objection to any ruLe fiLed by the Administrative Procedures Committee. 

6.Any other materiaL required or authorized by Law or deemed useful by the department. 





425; s. 4, ch. 79-299; s. 7, ch. 80-391; s. 4, ch. 81 -309; s. 1, ch. 82-19; s. 1, ch. 82-47; s. 3, ch. 83-351; s. 3, ch. 84-203; s. 17, 

ch. 87-224; s. 1, ch. 87-322; s. 20, ch. 91-45; s. 15, ch. 96-159; s. 896, ch. 2002-387; s. 5, ch. 2004-235; s. 14, ch. 2004-335; s. 4, 

ch. 2006-82; ss. 8, 9, ch. 2008-104; ss. 11, 12, ch. 2010-5; s. 2, ch. 2012-63. 

120.555Summary removal of published rules no longer in force and effect.—When, as part of the 

continuous revision system authorized ins. 120.55(1)(a)1. or as otherwise provided by Law, the Department of 

State is in doubt whether a ruLe published in the official version of the Florida Administrative Code is still in 

full force and effect, the procedure in this section shall be employed. 

(1 )The Department of State shalL submit to the head of the agency with authority to repeal or amend the 

rule, if any, or if no such agency can be identified, to the Governor, a written request for a statement as to 

whether the rule is stiLL in full force and effect. A copy of the request shall be promptLy delivered to the 

committee and to the Attorney General. The Department of State shalL pubLish a notice of the request 

together with a copy of the request in the FLorida Administrative Weekly next avaiLabLe after delivery of the 

request to the head of the agency or the Governor. 

(2)No later than 90 days after the date the notice required in subsection (1) is published, the agency or 

the Governor, notified pursuant to subsection (1), shall file a written response with the Department of State 

stating whether the rule is in fulL force and effect and under the jurisdiction of an agency with fulL authority 

to amend or repeal the ruLe. Failure to respond timely under this subsection constitutes an acknowledgment 

by the agency or the Governor that the ruLe is no longer in effect and is subject to summary repeaL under this 

section. 

(3)The Department of State shalL pubLish a notice of the agency's or Governor's timely response or the 

acknowledgment determined under subsection (2) in the Florida Administrative WeekLy next avaiLabLe after 

receipt of the response or the expiration of the response period, whichever occurs first. 

(4)If the response states that the ruLe is no longer in effect, or if no response is filed timeLy with the 

Department of State, the notice required in subsection (3) shall also give notice of the foLLowing: 

(a)Based on the agency's or Governor's written response or the acknowledgment determined under 

subsection (2), the ruLe wilL be repeaLed summarily pursuant to this section and removed from the Florida 

Administrative Code. 

(b)Any objection to the summary repeal under this section must be filed as a petition chaLlenging a 

proposed ruLe under s. 120.56 and must be fiLed no Later than 21 days after the date the notice is published in 

the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

(c)For purposes only of challenging a summary repeal under this section, the agency with current 

authority to repeaL the rule under s. 120.54 shalL be named as the respondent in the petition and shalL be the 

proper party in interest. In such circumstances, the Department of State shalL not be named as a party in a 

petition filed under paragraph (b) and this paragraph. 



(d)lf no agency currently has authority to repeaL the rule under s. 120.54, the Department of State shall 

be named as the respondent in a petition fiLed under paragraph (b) and this paragraph. The Attorney General 

shall represent the Department of State in alL proceedings under this paragraph. 

(5)Upon the expiration of the 21-day period to file an objection to a notice of summary repeal published 

pursuant to subsection (4), if no timely objection is filed, or, if a timely objection is fiLed, on the date a 

decision finding the rule is no Longer in effect becomes final, the Department of State shalL update the Florida 

Administrative Code to remove the rule and shaLl provide historical notes identifying the manner in which the 

rule ceased to have effect, incLuding the summary repeal pursuant to this section. 

History.—s. 2, ch. 2012-31. 

120.5oChallenges to rules.— 

(1 )GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY OF A RULE OR A PROPOSED RULE.— 

(a)Any person substantially affected by a ruLe or a proposed rule may seek an administrative 

determination of the invaLidity of the ruLe on the ground that the ruLe is an invaLid exercise of delegated 

legislative authority. 

(b)The petition seeking an administrative determination must state with particuLarity the provisions 

alleged to be invalid with sufficient expLanation of the facts or grounds for the aLleged invalidity and facts 

sufficient to show that the person chaLLenging a ruLe is substantialLy affected by it, or that the person 

challenging a proposed rule wouLd be substantiaLLy affected by it. 

(c)The petition shaLL be fiLed by electronic means with the division which shalL, immediateLy upon filing, 

forward by electronic means copies to the agency whose rule is challenged, the Department of State, and the 

committee. Within 10 days after receiving the petition, the division director shaLL, if the petition complies 

with the requirements of paragraph (b), assign an administrative law judge who shaLL conduct a hearing within 

30 days thereafter, unLess the petition is withdrawn or a continuance is granted by agreement of the parties 

or for good cause shown. Evidence of good cause includes, but is not Limited to, written notice of an agency's 

decision to modify or withdraw the proposed ruLe or a written notice from the chair of the committee stating 

that the committee wilL consider an objection to the rule at its next scheduLed meeting. The faiLure of an 

agency to follow the applicable ruLemaking procedures or requirements set forth in this chapter shaLl be 

presumed to be material; however, the agency may rebut this presumption by showing that the substantiaL 

interests of the petitioner and the fairness of the proceedings have not been impaired. 

(d)Within 30 days after the hearing, the administrative law judge shalL render a decision and state the 

reasons therefor in writing. The division shall forthwith transmit by eLectronic means copies of the 

administrative law judge's decision to the agency, the Department of State, and the committee. 

(e)Hearings held under this section shaLl be de novo in nature. The standard of proof shaLL be the 

preponderance of the evidence. Hearings shalL be conducted in the same manner as provided by ss. 120.569 





(b)The administrative law judge may declare all or part of a rule invalid. The rule or part thereof 

declared invalid shall become void when the time for filing an appeal expires. The agency whose rule has been 

declared invalid in whole or part shall give notice of the decision in the Florida Administrative Weekly in the 

first available issue after the rule has become void. 

(4)CHALLENGING AGENCY STATEMENTS DEFINED AS RULES; SPECIAL PROVISIONS.— 

(a)Any person substantially affected by an agency statement may seek an administrative determination 

that the statement violates s. 120.54(1)(a). The petition shall include the text of the statement or a 

description of the statement and shall state with particularity facts sufficient to show that the statement 

constitutes a rule under s. 120.52 and that the agency has not adopted the statement by the rulemaking 

procedure provided by s. 120.54. 

(b)The administrative law judge may extend the hearing date beyond 30 days after assignment of the 

case for good cause. Upon notification to the administrative law judge provided before the final hearing that 

the agency has published a notice of rulemaking under s. 120.54(3), such notice shall automatically operate as 

a stay of proceedings pending adoption of the statement as a rule. The administrative law judge may vacate 

the stay for good cause shown. A stay of proceedings pending rulemaking shall remain in effect so long as the 

agency is proceeding expeditiously and in good faith to adopt the statement as a rule. If a hearing is held and 

the petitioner proves the allegations of the petition, the agency shall have the burden of proving that 

rulemaking is not feasible or not practicable under s. 120.54(1)(a). 

(c)The administrative law judge may determine whether all or part of a statement violates s. 

120.54(1 )(a). The decision of the administrative law judge shall constitute a final order. The division shall 

transmit a copy of the final order to the Department of State and the committee. The Department of State 

shall publish notice of the final order in the first available issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. 

(d)If an administrative law judge enters a final order that all or part of an agency statement violates s. 

120.54(1)(a), the agency must immediately discontinue all reliance upon the statement or any substantially 

similar statement as a basis for agency action. 

(e)If proposed rules addressing the challenged statement are determined to be an invalid exercise of 

delegated legislative authority as defined in s. 120.52(8)(b)-(f), the agency must immediately discontinue 

reliance on the statement and any substantially similar statement until rules addressing the subject are 

properly adopted, and the administrative law judge shall enter a final order to that effect. 

(f)All proceedings to determine a violation of s. 120.54(1)(a) shall be brought pursuant to this subsection. 

A proceeding pursuant to this subsection may be consolidated with a proceeding under subsection (3) or under 

any other section of this chapter. This paragraph does not prevent a party whose substantial interests have 

been determined by an agency action from bringing a proceeding pursuant to s. 120.57(1)(e). 

(5)CHALLENGING EMERGENCY RULES; SPECIAL PROVISIONS.—Challenges to the validity of an emergency 



rule shall be subject to the foLLowing time scheduLes in lieu of those estabLished by paragraphs (1 )(c) and (d). 

Within 7 days after receiving the petition, the division director shall, if the petition complies with paragraph 

(1 )(b), assign an administrative Law judge, who shall conduct a hearing within 14 days, unLess the petition is 

withdrawn. The administrative Law judge shalL render a decision within 14 days after the hearing. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 5, ch. 75-191; s. 6, ch. 76-1 31; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 4, ch. 78-425; s. 759, ch. 95-147; s. 16, ch. 96- 

159; s. 6, ch. 97-176; s. 5, ch. 99-379; s. 3, ch. 2003-94; s. 5, ch. 2006-82; ss. 10, 11, ch. 2008-104; ss. 3, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9- 

A, 2010 SpeciaL Session A; s. 10, ch. 2011-208; s. 3, ch. 2011-225. 

120. 565Declaratory statement by agencies.— 

(1 )Any substantialLy affected person may seek a declaratory statement regarding an agency's opinion as 

to the applicabiLity of a statutory provision, or of any rule or order of the agency, as it appLies to the 

petitioner's particular set of circumstances. 

(2)The petition seeking a decLaratory statement shall state with particuLarity the petitioner's set of 

circumstances and shall specify the statutory provision, rule, or order that the petitioner believes may apply 

to the set of circumstances. 

(3)The agency shalL give notice of the fiLing of each petition in the next available issue of the Florida 

Administrative Weekly and transmit copies of each petition to the committee. The agency shall issue a 

declaratory statement or deny the petition within 90 days after the fiLing of the petition. The decLaratory 

statement or deniaL of the petition shaLL be noticed in the next availabLe issue of the FLorida Administrative 

Weekly. Agency disposition of petitions shalL be final agency action. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 75-191; s. 7, ch. 76-131; s. 5, ch. 78-425; s. 5, ch. 79-299; s. 760, ch. 95-147; s. 17, ch. 96-159. 

120. 5ó9Decisions which affect substantial interests.— 

(1 )The provisions of this section appLy in all proceedings in which the substantial interests of a party are 

determined by an agency, unless the parties are proceeding under s. 120.573 or s. 120.574. Unless waived by 

all parties, s. 120.57(1) applies whenever the proceeding involves a disputed issue of materiaL fact. Unless 

otherwise agreed, s. 120.57(2) applies in aLL other cases. If a disputed issue of materiaL fact arises during a 

proceeding under s. 120.57(2), then, unLess waived by all parties, the proceeding under s. 120.57(2) shall be 

terminated and a proceeding under s. 120.57(1) shall be conducted. Parties shall be notified of any order, 

including a finaL order. UnLess waived, a copy of the order shall be delivered or maiLed to each party or the 

party's attorney of record at the address of record. Each notice shaLl inform the recipient of any 

administrative hearing or judiciaL review that is available under this section, s. 120.57, or s. 120.68; shall 

indicate the procedure which must be followed to obtain the hearing or judicial review; and shaLl state the 

time limits which apply. 

(2)(a)Except for any proceeding conducted as prescribed in s. 120.56, a petition or request for a hearing 



under this section shall be fiLed with the agency. If the agency requests an administrative law judge from the 

division, it shall so notify the division by electronic means through the division's website within 15 days after 

receipt of the petition or request. A request for a hearing shall be granted or denied within 1 5 days after 

receipt. On the request of any agency, the division shall assign an administrative law judge with due regard to 

the expertise required for the particular matter. The referring agency shaLL take no further action with 

respect to a proceeding under s. 120.57(1), except as a party litigant, as Long as the division has jurisdiction 

over the proceeding under s. 120.57(1). Any party may request the disqualification of the administrative law 

judge by filing an affidavit with the division prior to the taking of evidence at a hearing, stating the grounds 

with particularity. 

(b)All parties shall be afforded an opportunity for a hearing after reasonabLe notice of not Less than 14 

days; however, the 14-day notice requirement may be waived with the consent of aLL parties. The notice shall 

include: 

1 .A statement of the time, pLace, and nature of the hearing. 

2.A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be heLd. 

(c)Unless otherwise provided by law, a petition or request for hearing shaLL include those items required 

by the uniform rules adopted pursuant to s. 120.54(5)(b). Upon the receipt of a petition or request for 

hearing, the agency shaLL carefuLLy review the petition to determine if it contains all of the required 

information. A petition shall be dismissed if it is not in substantial compLiance with these requirements or it 

has been untimeLy fiLed. DismissaL of a petition shall, at least once, be without prejudice to petitioner's filing 

a timely amended petition curing the defect, unLess it conclusively appears from the face of the petition that 

the defect cannot be cured. The agency shaLl promptly give written notice to aLl parties of the action taken on 

the petition, shalL state with particularity its reasons if the petition is not granted, and shall state the 

deadline for filing an amended petition if applicable. This paragraph does not eLiminate the avaiLabiLity of 

equitable tolling as a defense to the untimeLy filing of a petition. 

(d)The agency may refer a petition to the division for the assignment of an administrative Law judge only 

if the petition is in substantiaL compLiance with the requirements of paragraph (c). 

(e)ALL pleadings, motions, or other papers filed in the proceeding must be signed by the party, the party's 

attorney, or the party's quaLified representative. The signature constitutes a certificate that the person has 

read the pleading, motion, or other paper and that, based upon reasonabLe inquiry, it is not interposed for any 

improper purposes, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay, or for frivolous purpose or needless 

increase in the cost of Litigation. If a pleading, motion, or other paper is signed in vioLation of these 

requirements, the presiding officer shall impose upon the person who signed it, the represented party, or 

both, an appropriate sanction, which may include an order to pay the other party or parties the amount of 

reasonable expenses incurred because of the filing of the pleading, motion, or other paper, including a 



reasonable attorney's fee. 

(f)The presiding officer has the power to swear witnesses and take their testimony under oath, to issue 

subpoenas, and to effect discovery on the written request of any party by any means avaiLabLe to the courts 

and in the manner provided in the Florida RuLes of Civil Procedure, including the imposition of sanctions, 

except contempt. However, no presiding officer has the authority to issue any subpoena or order directing 

discovery to any member or employee of the LegisLature when the subpoena or order commands the 

production of documents or materials or compels testimony relating to the LegisLative duties of the member or 

employee. Any subpoena or order directing discovery directed to a member or an empLoyee of the LegisLature 

shall show on its face that the testimony sought does not relate to Legislative duties. 

(g)Irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence shall be excLuded, but all other evidence of a 

type commonly relied upon by reasonably prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs shaLL be admissible, 

whether or not such evidence would be admissible in a trial in the courts of FLorida. Any part of the evidence 

may be received in written form, and aLl testimony of parties and witnesses shall be made under oath. 

(h)Documentary evidence may be received in the form of a copy or excerpt. Upon request, parties shalL 

be given an opportunity to compare the copy with the original, if available. 

(i)When official recognition is requested, the parties shall be notified and given an opportunity to 

examine and contest the material. 

(j)A party shall be permitted to conduct cross-examination when testimony is taken or documents are 

made a part of the record. 

(k)1 .Any person subject to a subpoena may, before compliance and on timely petition, request the 

presiding officer having jurisdiction of the dispute to invalidate the subpoena on the ground that it was not 

lawfully issued, is unreasonably broad in scope, or requires the production of irreLevant materiaL. 

2.A party may seek enforcement of a subpoena, order directing discovery, or order imposing sanctions 

issued under the authority of this chapter by filing a petition for enforcement in the circuit court of the 

judicial circuit in which the person failing to comply with the subpoena or order resides. A faiLure to comply 

with an order of the court shall resuLt in a finding of contempt of court. However, no person shaLl be in 

contempt while a subpoena is being challenged under subparagraph 1. The court may award to the prevaiLing 

party all or part of the costs and attorney's fees incurred in obtaining the court order whenever the court 

determines that such an award shouLd be granted under the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure. 

3.Any public empLoyee subpoenaed to appear at an agency proceeding shalL be entitled to per diem and 

travel expenses at the same rate as that provided for state employees under s. 112.061 if travel away from 

such public employee's headquarters is required. ALL other witnesses appearing pursuant to a subpoena shall 

be paid such fees and miLeage for their attendance as is provided in civil actions in circuit courts of this state. 

In the case of a pubLic empLoyee, such expenses shall be processed and paid in the manner provided for 



agency employee travel expense reimbursement, and in the case of a witness who is not a pubLic empLoyee, 

payment of such fees and expenses shaLl accompany the subpoena. 

(l)Unless the time period is waived or extended with the consent of alL parties, the finaL order in a 

proceeding which affects substantial interests must be in writing and include findings of fact, if any, and 

conclusions of law separately stated, and it must be rendered within 90 days: 

1 .After the hearing is concluded, if conducted by the agency; 

2.After a recommended order is submitted to the agency and mailed to aLL parties, if the hearing is 

conducted by an administrative law judge; or 

3.After the agency has received the written and oral material it has authorized to be submitted, if there 

has been no hearing. 

(m)Findings of fact, if set forth in a manner which is no more than mere tracking of the statutory 

language, must be accompanied by a concise and explicit statement of the underlying facts of record which 

support the findings. 

(n)If an agency head finds that an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or weLfare requires an 

immediate final order, it shaLL recite with particularity the facts underLying such finding in the final order, 

which shall be appealabLe or enjoinable from the date rendered. 

(o)On the request of any party, the administrative Law judge shall enter an initial scheduLing order to 

facilitate the just, speedy, and inexpensive determination of the proceeding. The initial scheduling order shall 

establish a discovery period, incLuding a deadLine by which all discovery shall be compLeted, and the date by 

which the parties shall identify expert witnesses and their opinions. The initial scheduling order aLso may 

require the parties to meet and file a joint report by a date certain. 

(p)For any proceeding arising under chapter 373, chapter 378, or chapter 403, if a nonappLicant petitions 

as a third party to challenge an agency's issuance of a license, permit, or conceptuaL approvaL, the order of 

presentation in the proceeding is for the permit applicant to present a prima facie case demonstrating 

entitlement to the license, permit, or conceptuaL approvaL, folLowed by the agency. This demonstration may 

be made by entering into evidence the appLication and relevant material submitted to the agency in support 

of the application, and the agency's staff report or notice of intent to approve the permit, License, or 

conceptual approval. Subsequent to the presentation of the applicant's prima facie case and any direct 

evidence submitted by the agency, the petitioner initiating the action challenging the issuance of the license, 

permit, or conceptual approvaL has the burden of ultimate persuasion and has the burden of going forward to 

prove the case in opposition to the license, permit, or conceptual approval through the presentation of 

competent and substantiaL evidence. The permit appLicant and agency may on rebuttaL present any evidence 

relevant to demonstrating that the application meets the conditions for issuance. Notwithstanding subsection 

(1), this paragraph appLies to proceedings under s. 120.574. 



History.—s. 18, ch. 96-159; s. 7, ch. 97-176; s. 4, ch. 98-200; s. 4, ch. 2003-94; s. 6, ch. 2006-82; s. 14, ch. 2008-104; s. 11, 

ch. 2011-208; s. 10, ch. 2011-225. 

120.57Additional procedures for particular cases.— 

(1 )ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES APPLICABLE TO HEARINGS INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT.— 

(a)Except as provided in ss. 120.80 and 120.81, an administrative law judge assigned by the division shall 

conduct all hearings under this subsection, except for hearings before agency heads or a member thereof. If 

the administrative Law judge assigned to a hearing becomes unavailable, the division shall assign another 

administrative law judge who shaLl use any existing record and receive any additional evidence or argument, if 

any, which the new administrative Law judge finds necessary. 

(b)All parties shall have an opportunity to respond, to present evidence and argument on aLL issues 

invoLved, to conduct cross-examination and submit rebuttal evidence, to submit proposed findings of facts and 

orders, to file exceptions to the presiding officer's recommended order, and to be represented by counsel or 

other qualified representative. When appropriate, the general public may be given an opportunity to present 

oraL or written communications. If the agency proposes to consider such materiaL, then aLl parties shall be 

given an opportunity to cross-examine or chaLlenge or rebut the materiaL. 

(c)Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining other evidence, but it 

shall not be sufficient in itseLf to support a finding unless it wouLd be admissibLe over objection in civil 

actions. 

(d)Notwithstanding s. 120.569(2)(g), similar fact evidence of other violations, wrongs, or acts is 

admissible when relevant to prove a materiaL fact in issue, such as proof of motive, opportunity, intent, 

preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or accident, but it is inadmissibLe when the 

evidence is relevant soLeLy to prove bad character or propensity. When the state in an administrative 

proceeding intends to offer evidence of other acts or offenses under this paragraph, the state shaLL furnish to 

the party whose substantiaL interests are being determined and whose other acts or offenses wiLL be the 

subject of such evidence, no fewer than 10 days before commencement of the proceeding, a written 

statement of the acts or offenses it intends to offer, describing them and the evidence the state intends to 

offer with particularity. Notice is not required for evidence of acts or offenses which is used for impeachment 

or on rebuttal. 

(e)1 .An agency or an administrative Law judge may not base agency action that determines the 

substantial interests of a party on an unadopted rule. The administrative Law judge shalL determine whether 

an agency statement constitutes an unadopted ruLe. This subparagraph does not precLude appLication of 

adopted rules and applicabLe provisions of law to the facts. 

2.Notwithstanding subparagraph 1., if an agency demonstrates that the statute being implemented 

directs it to adopt rules, that the agency has not had time to adopt those ruLes because the requirement was 





(g)The agency shaLL accurateLy and completeLy preserve all testimony in the proceeding, and, on the 

request of any party, it shall make a fuLL or partial transcript available at no more than actual cost. 

(h)Any party to a proceeding in which an administrative law judge of the Division of Administrative 

Hearings has final order authority may move for a summary final order when there is no genuine issue as to 

any material fact. A summary final order shaLl be rendered if the administrative law judge determines from 

the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with affidavits, if any, 

that no genuine issue as to any materiaL fact exists and that the moving party is entitled as a matter of Law to 

the entry of a final order. A summary finaL order shall consist of findings of fact, if any, conclusions of law, a 

disposition or penalty, if appLicabLe, and any other information required by law to be contained in the final 

order. 

(i)When, in any proceeding conducted pursuant to this subsection, a dispute of materiaL fact no longer 

exists, any party may move the administrative law judge to relinquish jurisdiction to the agency. An order 

relinquishing jurisdiction shall be rendered if the administrative law judge determines from the pleadings, 

depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with supporting and opposing 

affidavits, if any, that no genuine issue as to any material fact exists. If the administrative law judge enters 

an order relinquishing jurisdiction, the agency may promptly conduct a proceeding pursuant to subsection (2), 

if appropriate, but the parties may not raise any issues of disputed fact that could have been raised before 

the administrative Law judge. An order entered by an administrative law judge reLinquishing jurisdiction to the 

agency based upon a determination that no genuine dispute of material fact exists, need not contain findings 

of fact, conclusions of law, or a recommended disposition or penalty. 

(j)Findings of fact shall be based upon a preponderance of the evidence, except in penaL or Licensure 

disciplinary proceedings or except as otherwise provided by statute, and shaLL be based exclusiveLy on the 

evidence of record and on matters officially recognized. 

(k)The presiding officer shall complete and submit to the agency and aLl parties a recommended order 

consisting of findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommended disposition or penalty, if appLicable, and 

any other information required by law to be contained in the final order. All proceedings conducted under this 

subsection shall be de novo. The agency shall allow each party 15 days in which to submit written exceptions 

to the recommended order. The finaL order shall include an explicit ruLing on each exception, but an agency 

need not rule on an exception that does not clearLy identify the disputed portion of the recommended order 

by page number or paragraph, that does not identify the legal basis for the exception, or that does not include 

appropriate and specific citations to the record. 

(l)The agency may adopt the recommended order as the final order of the agency. The agency in its finaL 

order may reject or modify the concLusions of law over which it has substantive jurisdiction and interpretation 

of administrative rules over which it has substantive jurisdiction. When rejecting or modifying such conclusion 



of Law or interpretation of administrative rule, the agency must state with particuLarity its reasons for 

rejecting or modifying such conclusion of Law or interpretation of administrative rule and must make a finding 

that its substituted conclusion of Law or interpretation of administrative ruLe is as or more reasonable than 

that which was rejected or modified. Rejection or modification of conclusions of law may not form the basis 

for rejection or modification of findings of fact. The agency may not reject or modify the findings of fact 

unless the agency first determines from a review of the entire record, and states with particuLarity in the 

order, that the findings of fact were not based upon competent substantiaL evidence or that the proceedings 

on which the findings were based did not comply with essential requirements of Law. The agency may accept 

the recommended penalty in a recommended order, but may not reduce or increase it without a review of the 

compLete record and without stating with particuLarity its reasons therefor in the order, by citing to the 

record in justifying the action. 

(m)If a recommended order is submitted to an agency, the agency shaLl provide a copy of its finaL order 

and any exceptions to the division within 1 5 days after the order is filed with the agency cLerk. 

(n)Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, when statutes or rules impose conflicting time requirements 

for the scheduling of expedited hearings or issuance of recommended or final orders, the director of the 

division shall have the authority to set the proceedings for the orderly operation of this chapter. 

(2)ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES APPLICABLE TO HEARINGS NOT INVOLVING DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL 

FACT.—In any case to which subsection (1) does not apply: 

(a)The agency shaLL: 

1 .Give reasonable notice to affected persons of the action of the agency, whether proposed or already 

taken, or of its decision to refuse action, together with a summary of the factuaL, LegaL, and poLicy grounds 

therefor. 

2.Give parties or their counsel the option, at a convenient time and pLace, to present to the agency or 

hearing officer written or oral evidence in opposition to the action of the agency or to its refusal to act, or a 

written statement chaLLenging the grounds upon which the agency has chosen to justify its action or inaction. 

3.If the objections of the parties are overruled, provide a written explanation within 7 days. 

(b)The record shall only consist of: 

1 .The notice and summary of grounds. 

2.Evidence received. 

3.All written statements submitted. 

4.Any decision overruling objections. 

5.All matters placed on the record after an ex parte communication. 

6.The official transcript. 

7.Any decision, opinion, order, or report by the presiding officer. 



(3)ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES APPLICABLE TO PROTESTS TO CONTRACT SOLICITATION OR AWARD.— 

Agencies subject to this chapter shaLL use the uniform rules of procedure, which provide procedures for the 

resolution of protests arising from the contract solicitation or award process. Such rules shall at least provide 

that: 

(a)The agency shaLL provide notice of a decision or intended decision concerning a soLicitation, contract 

award, or exceptional purchase by eLectronic posting. This notice shall contain the folLowing statement: 

"Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in section 120.57(3), FLorida Statutes, or faiLure to post 

the bond or other security required by Law within the time allowed for filing a bond shaLL constitute a waiver 

of proceedings under chapter 120, FLorida Statutes." 

(b)Any person who is adversely affected by the agency decision or intended decision shalL fiLe with the 

agency a notice of protest in writing within 72 hours after the posting of the notice of decision or intended 

decision. With respect to a protest of the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in a soLicitation, 

including any provisions governing the methods for ranking bids, proposals, or replies, awarding contracts, 

reserving rights of further negotiation, or modifying or amending any contract, the notice of protest shall be 

fiLed in writing within 72 hours after the posting of the solicitation. The formal written protest shall be filed 

within 10 days after the date the notice of protest is filed. Failure to file a notice of protest or failure to file a 

formaL written protest shalL constitute a waiver of proceedings under this chapter. The formal written protest 

shall state with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based. Saturdays, Sundays, and state 

holidays shall be excluded in the computation of the 72-hour time periods provided by this paragraph. 

(c)Upon receipt of the formal written protest that has been timely fiLed, the agency shalL stop the 

soLicitation or contract award process until the subject of the protest is resolved by final agency action, unless 

the agency head sets forth in writing particuLar facts and circumstances which require the continuance of the 

soLicitation or contract award process without deLay in order to avoid an immediate and serious danger to the 

public health, safety, or weLfare. 

(d)1 .The agency shaLl provide an opportunity to resolve the protest by mutuaL agreement between the 

parties within 7 days, excLuding Saturdays, Sundays, and state hoLidays, after receipt of a formal written 

protest. 

2.If the subject of a protest is not resolved by mutual agreement within 7 days, excluding Saturdays, 

Sundays, and state holidays, after receipt of the formaL written protest, and if there is no disputed issue of 

material fact, an informaL proceeding shalL be conducted pursuant to subsection (2) and appLicabLe agency 

rules before a person whose qualifications have been prescribed by rules of the agency. 

3.If the subject of a protest is not resolved by mutual agreement within 7 days, excluding Saturdays, 

Sundays, and state holidays, after receipt of the formaL written protest, and if there is a disputed issue of 

material fact, the agency shaLL refer the protest to the division by electronic means through the division's 



website for proceedings under subsection (1). 

(e)Upon receipt of a formal written protest referred pursuant to this subsection, the director of the 

division shall expedite the hearing and assign an administrative law judge who shall commence a hearing 

within 30 days after the receipt of the formal written protest by the division and enter a recommended order 

within 30 days after the hearing or within 30 days after receipt of the hearing transcript by the administrative 

law judge, whichever is later. Each party shall be allowed 10 days in which to submit written exceptions to 

the recommended order. A final order shall be entered by the agency within 30 days of the entry of a 

recommended order. The provisions of this paragraph may be waived upon stipulation by all parties. 

(f)In a protest to an invitation to bid or request for proposals procurement, no submissions made after 

the bid or proposal opening which amend or supplement the bid or proposal shall be considered. In a protest 

to an invitation to negotiate procurement, no submissions made after the agency announces its intent to 

award a contract, reject all replies, or withdraw the solicitation which amend or supplement the reply shall 

be considered. Unless otherwise provided by statute, the burden of proof shall rest with the party protesting 

the proposed agency action. In a competitive-procurement protest, other than a rejection of all bids, 

proposals, or replies, the administrative law judge shall conduct a de novo proceeding to determine whether 

the agency's proposed action is contrary to the agency's governing statutes, the agency's rules or policies, or 

the solicitation specifications. The standard of proof for such proceedings shall be whether the proposed 

agency action was clearly erroneous, contrary to competition, arbitrary, or capricious. In any bid-protest 

proceeding contesting an intended agency action to reject all bids, proposals, or replies, the standard of 

review by an administrative law judge shall be whether the agency's intended action is illegal, arbitrary, 

dishonest, or fraudulent. 

(g)For purposes of this subsection, the definitions in s. 287.012 apply. 

(4)INFORMAL DISPOSITION.—Unless precluded by law, informal disposition may be made of any proceeding 

by stipulation, agreed settlement, or consent order. 

(5)APPLICABILITY.—This section does not apply to agency investigations preliminary to agency action. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 7, ch. 75-191; s. 8, ch. 76-1 31; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 5, ch. 77-453; ss. 6, 11, ch. 78-95; s. 6, ch. 78- 

425; s. 8, ch. 79-7; s. 7, ch. 80-95; s. 4, ch. 80-289; s. 57, ch. 81 -259; s. 2, ch. 83-78; s. 9, ch. 83-216; s. 2, ch. 84-173; s. 4, ch. 

84-203; ss. 1, 2, ch. 86-108; s. 44, ch. 87-6; ss. 1, 2, ch. 87-54; s. 5, ch. 87-385; s. 1, ch. 90-283; s. 4, ch. 91-30; s. 1, ch. 91-191; 

s. 22, ch. 92-315; s. 7, ch. 94-218; s. 1420, ch. 95-147; s. 1, ch. 95-328; s. 19, ch. 96-159; s. 1, ch. 96-423; s. 8, ch. 97-176; s. 5, 

ch. 98-200; s. 3, ch. 98-279; s. 47, ch. 99-2; s. 6, ch. 99-379; s. 2, ch. 2002-207; s. 5, ch. 2003-94; s. 7, ch. 2006-82; s. 12, ch. 

2008-104; s. 12, ch. 2011-208. 

I 20.573Mediation of disputes.—Each announcement of an agency action that affects substantial 

interests shall advise whether mediation of the administrative dispute for the type of agency action 

announced is available and that choosing mediation does not affect the right to an administrative hearing. If 



the agency and alL parties to the administrative action agree to mediation, in writing, within 10 days after the 

time period stated in the announcement for election of an administrative remedy under ss. 120.569 and 

120.57, the time Limitations imposed by ss. 120.569 and 120.57 shalL be toLled to aLLow the agency and parties 

to mediate the administrative dispute. The mediation shall be concluded within 60 days of such agreement 

unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The mediation agreement shall include provisions for mediator 

selection, the aLLocation of costs and fees associated with mediation, and the mediating parties' 

understanding regarding the confidentiality of discussions and documents introduced during mediation. If 

mediation results in settLement of the administrative dispute, the agency shaLl enter a finaL order 

incorporating the agreement of the parties. If mediation terminates without settLement of the dispute, the 

agency shall notify the parties in writing that the administrative hearing processes under ss. 120.569 and 

120.57 are resumed. 

History.—s. 20, ch. 96-159; s. 9, ch. 97-176. 

I 20.574Summary hearing.— 

(1 )(a)Within 5 business days following the division's receipt of a petition or request for hearing, the 

division shall issue and serve on alL original parties an initial order that assigns the case to a specific 

administrative law judge and provides generaL information regarding practice and procedure before the 

division. The initiaL order shall also contain a statement advising the addressees that a summary hearing is 

available upon the agreement of aLl parties under subsection (2) and briefly describing the expedited time 

sequences, limited discovery, and finaL order provisions of the summary procedure. 

(b)Within 1 5 days after service of the initial order, any party may file with the division a motion for 

summary hearing in accordance with subsection (2). If all original parties agree, in writing, to the summary 

proceeding, the proceeding shaLL be conducted within 30 days of the agreement, in accordance with the 

provisions of subsection (2). 

(c)Intervenors in the proceeding shalL be governed by the decision of the originaL parties regarding 

whether the case wiLl proceed in accordance with the summary hearing process and shalL not have standing to 

challenge that decision. 

(d)If a motion for summary hearing is not fiLed within 15 days after service of the division's initiaL order, 

the matter shaLL proceed in accordance with ss. 120.569 and 120.57. 

(2)In any case to which this subsection is applicabLe, the following procedures apply: 

(a)Motions shall be Limited to the folLowing: 

1 .A motion in opposition to the petition. 

2.A motion requesting discovery beyond the informal exchange of documents and witness Lists described 

in paragraph (b). Upon a showing of necessity, additional discovery may be permitted in the discretion of the 

administrative law judge, but only if it can be completed not later than 5 days prior to the final hearing. 





History.—s. 21, ch. 96-159; s. 10, ch. 97-176; s. 11, ch. 2000-158; s. 10, ch. 2000-336. 

I 20.595Attorney's fees.— 

(1)CHALLENGES TO AGENCY ACTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.57(1).— 

(a)The provisions of this subsection are suppLemental to, and do not abrogate, other provisions aLLowing 

the award of fees or costs in administrative proceedings. 

(b)The final order in a proceeding pursuant to s. 120.57(1) shaLl award reasonabLe costs and a reasonable 

attorney's fee to the prevaiLing party onLy where the nonprevailing adverse party has been determined by the 

administrative law judge to have participated in the proceeding for an improper purpose. 

(c)In proceedings pursuant to s. 120.57(1), and upon motion, the administrative Law judge shalL 

determine whether any party participated in the proceeding for an improper purpose as defined by this 

subsection. In making such determination, the administrative law judge shalL consider whether the 

nonprevailing adverse party has participated in two or more other such proceedings involving the same 

prevailing party and the same project as an adverse party and in which such two or more proceedings the 

nonprevailing adverse party did not estabLish either the factual or legaL merits of its position, and shall 

consider whether the factual or LegaL position asserted in the instant proceeding would have been cognizable 

in the previous proceedings. In such event, it shaLl be rebuttabLy presumed that the nonprevaiLing adverse 

party participated in the pending proceeding for an improper purpose. 

(d)In any proceeding in which the administrative law judge determines that a party participated in the 

proceeding for an improper purpose, the recommended order shall so designate and shall determine the 

award of costs and attorney's fees. 

(e)For the purpose of this subsection: 

1."Improper purpose" means participation in a proceeding pursuant to s. 120.57(1) primarily to harass or 

to cause unnecessary deLay or for frivolous purpose or to needlessly increase the cost of litigation, licensing, 

or securing the approval of an activity. 

2."Costs" has the same meaning as the costs alLowed in civil actions in this state as provided in chapter 

57. 

3."Nonprevailing adverse party" means a party that has faiLed to have substantially changed the outcome 

of the proposed or final agency action which is the subject of a proceeding. In the event that a proceeding 

results in any substantial modification or condition intended to resoLve the matters raised in a party's 

petition, it shaLl be determined that the party having raised the issue addressed is not a nonprevaiLing adverse 

party. The recommended order shaLl state whether the change is substantiaL for purposes of this subsection. In 

no event shall the term "nonprevailing party" or "prevailing party" be deemed to include any party that has 

intervened in a previously existing proceeding to support the position of an agency. 

(2)CHALLENGES TO PROPOSED AGENCY RULES PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.56(2).—If the appellate court or 



administrative law judge decLares a proposed ruLe or portion of a proposed rule invalid pursuant to s. 

120.56(2), a judgment or order shaLl be rendered against the agency for reasonable costs and reasonabLe 

attorney's fees, unLess the agency demonstrates that its actions were substantiaLly justified or special 

circumstances exist which would make the award unjust. An agency's actions are "substantiaLly justified" if 

there was a reasonabLe basis in Law and fact at the time the actions were taken by the agency. If the agency 

prevails in the proceedings, the appeLLate court or administrative Law judge shalL award reasonable costs and 

reasonable attorney's fees against a party if the appellate court or administrative law judge determines that a 

party participated in the proceedings for an improper purpose as defined by paragraph (1 )(e). No award of 

attorney's fees as provided by this subsection shaLl exceed $50,000. 

(3)CHALLENGES TO EXISTING AGENCY RULES PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.56(3) AND (5).—If the appeLlate 

court or administrative law judge declares a rule or portion of a rule invalid pursuant to s. 120.56(3) or (5), a 

judgment or order shall be rendered against the agency for reasonable costs and reasonable attorney's fees, 

unless the agency demonstrates that its actions were substantiaLly justified or speciaL circumstances exist 

which would make the award unjust. An agency's actions are "substantiaLLy justified" if there was a 

reasonable basis in law and fact at the time the actions were taken by the agency. If the agency prevails in 

the proceedings, the appelLate court or administrative law judge shall award reasonable costs and reasonable 

attorney's fees against a party if the appelLate court or administrative law judge determines that a party 

participated in the proceedings for an improper purpose as defined by paragraph (1 )(e). No award of 

attorney's fees as provided by this subsection shaLl exceed $50,000. 

(4)CHALLENGES TO AGENCY ACTION PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.56(4).— 

(a)If the appeLlate court or administrative Law judge determines that alL or part of an agency statement 

violates s. 120.54(1)(a), or that the agency must immediately discontinue reliance on the statement and any 

substantially similar statement pursuant to s. 120.56(4)(e), a judgment or order shaLL be entered against the 

agency for reasonable costs and reasonabLe attorney's fees, unless the agency demonstrates that the 

statement is required by the FederaL Government to implement or retain a deLegated or approved program or 

to meet a condition to receipt of federaL funds. 

(b)Upon notification to the administrative law judge provided before the final hearing that the agency 

has published a notice of rulemaking under s. 120.54(3)(a), such notice shaLL automatically operate as a stay 

of proceedings pending rulemaking. The administrative law judge may vacate the stay for good cause shown. 

A stay of proceedings under this paragraph remains in effect so long as the agency is proceeding expeditiously 

and in good faith to adopt the statement as a rule. The administrative Law judge shaLl award reasonabLe costs 

and reasonable attorney's fees accrued by the petitioner prior to the date the notice was pubLished, unless 

the agency proves to the administrative law judge that it did not know and shouLd not have known that the 

statement was an unadopted ruLe. Attorneys' fees and costs under this paragraph and paragraph (a) shaLl be 



awarded only upon a finding that the agency received notice that the statement may constitute an unadopted 

rule at least 30 days before a petition under s. 120.56(4) was filed and that the agency failed to publish the 

required notice of rulemaking pursuant to s. 120.54(3) that addresses the statement within that 30-day 

period. Notice to the agency may be satisfied by its receipt of a copy of the s. 120.56(4) petition, a notice or 

other paper containing substantially the same information, or a petition filed pursuant to s. 120.54(7). An 

award of attorney's fees as provided by this paragraph may not exceed $50,000. 

(c)Notwithstanding the provisions of chapter 284, an award shall be paid from the budget entity of the 

secretary, executive director, or equivalent administrative officer of the agency, and the agency shall not be 

entitled to payment of an award or reimbursement for payment of an award under any provision of law. 

(d)If the agency prevails in the proceedings, the appellate court or administrative law judge shall award 

reasonable costs and attorney's fees against a party if the appellate court or administrative law judge 

determines that the party participated in the proceedings for an improper purpose as defined in paragraph 

(1 )(e) or that the party or the party's attorney knew or should have known that a claim was not supported by 

the material facts necessary to establish the claim or would not be supported by the application of then- 

existing law to those material facts. 

(5)APPEALS.—When there is an appeal, the court in its discretion may award reasonable attorney's fees 

and reasonable costs to the prevailing party if the court finds that the appeal was frivolous, meritless, or an 

abuse of the appellate process, or that the agency action which precipitated the appeal was a gross abuse of 

the agency's discretion. Upon review of agency action that precipitates an appeal, if the court finds that the 

agency improperly rejected or modified findings of fact in a recommended order, the court shall award 

reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable costs to a prevailing appellant for the administrative proceeding 

and the appellate proceeding. 

(6)OTHER SECTIONS NOT AFFECTED.—Other provisions, including ss. 57.105 and 57.111, authorize the 

award of attorney's fees and costs in administrative proceedings. Nothing in this section shall affect the 

availability of attorney's fees and costs as provided in those sections. 

History.—s. 25, ch. 96-159; s. 11, ch. 97-176; s. 48, ch. 99-2; s. 6, ch. 2003-94; s. 13, ch. 2008-104. 

I 20.6oLicensing.— 

(1 )Upon receipt of a license application, an agency shall examine the application and, within 30 days 

after such receipt, notify the applicant of any apparent errors or omissions and request any additional 

information the agency is permitted by law to require. An agency may not deny a license for failure to correct 

an error or omission or to supply additional information unless the agency timely notified the applicant within 

this 30-day period. The agency may establish by rule the time period for submitting any additional information 

requested by the agency. For good cause shown, the agency shall grant a request for an extension of time for 

submitting the additional information. If the applicant believes the agency's request for additional 



information is not authorized by law or rule, the agency, at the appLicant's request, shall proceed to process 

the application. An appLication is compLete upon receipt of all requested information and correction of any 

error or omission for which the applicant was timeLy notified or when the time for such notification has 

expired. An application for a license must be approved or denied within 90 days after receipt of a completed 

application unless a shorter period of time for agency action is provided by Law. The 90-day time period is 

tolled by the initiation of a proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57. Any appLication for a License which is 

not approved or denied within the 90-day or shorter time period, within 15 days after conclusion of a public 

hearing held on the application, or within 45 days after a recommended order is submitted to the agency and 

the parties, whichever action and timeframe is Latest and applicabLe, is considered approved unless the 

recommended order recommends that the agency deny the license. Subject to the satisfactory completion of 

an examination if required as a prerequisite to Licensure, any license that is considered approved shall be 

issued and may incLude such reasonabLe conditions as are authorized by Law. Any appLicant for Licensure 

seeking to claim licensure by defauLt under this subsection shall notify the agency clerk of the Licensing 

agency, in writing, of the intent to rely upon the default license provision of this subsection, and may not take 

any action based upon the defauLt License until after receipt of such notice by the agency clerk. 

(2)If an applicant seeks a License for an activity that is exempt from licensure, the agency shalL notify the 

applicant and return any tendered application fee within 30 days after receipt of the originaL appLication. 

(3)Each applicant shalL be given written notice, personally or by mail, that the agency intends to grant or 

deny, or has granted or denied, the appLication for license. The notice must state with particularity the 

grounds or basis for the issuance or deniaL of the license, except when issuance is a ministeriaL act. Unless 

waived, a copy of the notice shaLl be deLivered or mailed to each party's attorney of record and to each 

person who has made a written request for notice of agency action. Each notice must inform the recipient of 

the basis for the agency decision, inform the recipient of any administrative hearing pursuant to ss. 120.569 

and 120.57 or judiciaL review pursuant to s. 120.68 which may be avaiLable, indicate the procedure that must 

be folLowed, and state the appLicabLe time Limits. The issuing agency shaLL certify the date the notice was 

mailed or delivered, and the notice and the certification must be fiLed with the agency clerk. 

(4)When a licensee has made timely and sufficient application for the renewal of a License which does 

not automaticaLLy expire by statute, the existing License shall not expire until the application for renewal has 

been finally acted upon by the agency or, in case the application is denied or the terms of the License are 

limited, until the Last day for seeking review of the agency order or a later date fixed by order of the 

reviewing court. 

1 (5)No revocation, suspension, annulment, or withdrawaL of any license is lawful unless, prior to the entry 

of a final order, the agency has served, by personal service or certified mail, an administrative complaint 

which affords reasonable notice to the licensee of facts or conduct which warrant the intended action and 



unless the licensee has been given an adequate opportunity to request a proceeding pursuant to ss. 120.569 

and 120.57. When personaL service cannot be made and the certified maiL notice is returned undelivered, the 

agency shall cause a short, pLain notice to the Licensee to be pubLished once each week for 4 consecutive 

weeks in a newspaper published in the county of the licensee's last known address as it appears on the 

records of the agency. If no newspaper is pubLished in that county, the notice may be published in a 

newspaper of general circulation in that county. 

(6)If the agency finds that immediate serious danger to the public heaLth, safety, or welfare requires 

emergency suspension, restriction, or limitation of a license, the agency may take such action by any 

procedure that is fair under the circumstances if: 

(a)The procedure provides at least the same proceduraL protection as is given by other statutes, the State 

Constitution, or the United States Constitution; 

(b)The agency takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency 

procedure; and 

(c)The agency states in writing at the time of, or prior to, its action the specific facts and reasons for 

finding an immediate danger to the public heaLth, safety, or welfare and its reasons for concluding that the 

procedure used is fair under the circumstances. The agency's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and 

procedural fairness are judicially reviewabLe. Summary suspension, restriction, or limitation may be ordered, 

but a suspension or revocation proceeding pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57 shall also be promptLy instituted 

and acted upon. 

(7)No agency shaLl include as a condition of approval of any license any provision that is based upon a 

statement, policy, or guideline of another agency unless the statement, policy, or guideline is within the 

jurisdiction of the other agency. The other agency shall identify for the licensing agency the specific legal 

authority for each such statement, poLicy, or guideline. The licensing agency must provide the licensee with 

an opportunity to chalLenge the condition as invaLid. If the licensing agency bases a condition of approval or 

denial of the license upon the statement, policy, or guideline of the other agency, any party to an 

administrative proceeding that arises from the approvaL with conditions or denial of the License may require 

the other agency to join as a party in determining the validity of the condition. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 10, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; ss. 6, 9, ch. 77-453; s. 57, ch. 78-95; s. 8, ch. 78-425; s. 1, ch. 

79-142; s. 6, ch. 79-299; s. 2, ch. 81-180; s. 6, ch. 84-203; s. 2, ch. 84-265; s. 1, ch. 85-82; s. 14, ch. 90-51; s. 762, ch. 95-147; s. 

26, ch. 96-159; s. 326, ch. 96-410; s. 12, ch. 97-176; s. 7, ch. 2003-94; ss. 4, 5, ch. 2010-279; HJR 9-A, 2010 Special Session A; s. 

10, ch. 2012-212. 

Note.—Section 21, ch. 2012-212, provides that e]xcept as otherwise expressly provided in this act, this 

act shall take effect July 1, 2012, and shaLL apply to legal notices that must be pubLished on or after that 

date." 



I 20.62Agency investigations.— 

(1 )Every person who responds to a request or demand by any agency or representative thereof for written 

data or an oral statement shaLt be entitLed to a transcript or recording of his or her oral statement at no more 

than cost. 

(2)Any person compelled to appear, or who appears voluntarily, before any presiding officer or agency in 

an investigation or in any agency proceeding has the right, at his or her own expense, to be accompanied, 

represented, and advised by counseL or by other qualified representatives. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 763, ch. 95-147; s. 28, ch. 96-159. 

120.63Exemption from act.— 

(1 )Upon application of any agency, the Administration Commission may exempt any process or proceeding 

governed by this act from one or more requirements of this act: 

(a)When the agency head has certified that the requirement would conflict with any provision of federal 

law or rules with which the agency must compLy; 

(b)In order to permit persons in the state to receive tax benefits or federaL funds under any federal law; 

or 

(c)When the commission has found that conformity with the requirements of the part or parts of this act 

for which exemption is sought wouLd be so inconvenient or impractical as to defeat the purpose of the agency 

proceeding involved or the purpose of this act and would not be in the public interest in light of the nature of 

the intended action and the enabLing act or other laws affecting the agency. 

(2)The commission may not exempt an agency from any requirement of this act pursuant to this section 

until it estabLishes alternative procedures to achieve the agency's purpose which shaLL be consistent, insofar 

as possible, with the intent and purpose of the act. 

(a)Prior to the granting of any exemption authorized by this section, the commission shall hold a pubLic 

hearing after notice given as provided in s. 120.525. Upon the conclusion of the hearing, the commission, 

through the Executive Office of the Governor, shalL issue an order specifically granting or denying the 

exemption and specifying any processes or proceedings exempted and the extent of the exemption; transmit 

to the committee and to the Department of State a copy of the petition, a certified copy of the order granting 

or denying the petition, and a copy of any aLternative procedures prescribed; and give notice of the petition 

and the commission's response in the FLorida Administrative Weekly. 

(b)An exemption and any aLternative procedure prescribed shall terminate 90 days following adjournment 

sine die of the then-current or next regular legisLative session after issuance of the exemption order, or upon 

the effective date of any subsequent legisLation incorporating the exemption or any partial exemption related 

thereto, whichever is earlier. The exemption granted by the commission shaLl be renewabLe upon the same or 



similar facts not more than once. Such renewal shall terminate as would an originaL exemption. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 11, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-53; s. 8, ch. 77-453; S. 87, ch. 79-190; s. 7, ch. 79-299; s. 70, ch. 79- 

400; s. 58, ch. 81 -259; s. 29, ch. 96-159. 

120. 65Administrative law judges.— 

(1 )The Division of Administrative Hearings within the Department of Management Services shaLL be 

headed by a director who shaLL be appointed by the Administration Commission and confirmed by the Senate. 

The director, who shall also serve as the chief administrative law judge, and any deputy chief administrative 

law judge must possess the same minimum qualifications as the administrative Law judges employed by the 

division. The Deputy Chief Judge of Compensation CLaims must possess the minimum qualifications estabLished 

in s. 440.45(2) and shaLl report to the director. The division shall be a separate budget entity, and the director 

shall be its agency head for all purposes. The Department of Management Services shalL provide administrative 

support and service to the division to the extent requested by the director. The division shall not be subject 

to control, supervision, or direction by the Department of Management Services in any manner, including, but 

not limited to, personneL, purchasing, transactions involving real or personal property, and budgetary matters. 

(2)The director has the right to appeal actions by the Executive Office of the Governor that affect 

amendments to the division's approved operating budget or any personnel actions pursuant to chapter 216 to 

the Administration Commission, which shaLl decide such issue by majority vote. The appropriations 

committees may advise the Administration Commission on the issue. If the President of the Senate and the 

Speaker of the House of Representatives object in writing to the effects of the appeaL, the appeal may be 

affirmed by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the commission members present. 

(3)Each state agency as defined in chapter 216 and each political subdivision shall make its faciLities 

available, at a time convenient to the provider, for use by the division in conducting proceedings pursuant to 

this chapter. 

(4)The division shall employ administrative Law judges to conduct hearings required by this chapter or 

other law. Any person empLoyed by the division as an administrative law judge must have been a member of 

The Florida Bar in good standing for the preceding 5 years. 

(5)If the division cannot furnish a division administrative law judge promptLy in response to an agency 

request, the director shaLl designate in writing a qualified full-time employee of an agency other than the 

requesting agency to conduct the hearing. The director shall have the discretion to designate such a hearing 

officer who is located in that part of the state where the parties and witnesses reside. 

(6)By rule, the division may establish: 

(a)Further qualifications for administrative law judges and shall estabLish procedures by which candidates 

will be considered for employment or contract. 

(b)The manner in which pubLic notice wilL be given of vacancies in the staff of administrative Law judges. 



(c)Procedures for the assignment of administrative law judges. 

(7)The division is authorized to provide administrative law judges on a contract basis to any 

governmental entity to conduct any hearing not covered by this section. 

(8)The division shall have the authority to adopt reasonable rules to carry out the provisions of this act. 

(9)Rules promulgated by the division may authorize any reasonable sanctions except contempt for 

violation of the rules of the division or failure to comply with a reasonable order issued by an administrative 

law judge, which is not under judiciaL review. 

(10)Not later than February 1 of each year, the division shall issue a written report to the Administrative 

Procedures Committee and the Administration Commission, including at Least the following information: 

(a)A summary of the extent and effect of agencies' utilization of administrative Law judges, court 

reporters, and other personneL in proceedings under this chapter. 

(b)Recommendations for change or improvement in the Administrative Procedure Act or any agency's 

practice or policy with respect thereto. 

(c)Recommendations as to those types of cases or disputes which should be conducted under the 

summary hearing process described in s. 120.574. 

(d)A report regarding each agency's compLiance with the filing requirement in s. 120.57(1 )(m). 

(11 )The division shall be reimbursed for administrative law judge services and traveL expenses by the 

following entities: water management districts, regional planning councils, school districts, community 

colleges, the Division of Florida Colleges, state universities, the Board of Governors of the State University 

System, the State Board of Education, the Florida SchooL for the Deaf and the Blind, and the Commission for 

Independent Education. These entities shalL contract with the division to establish a contract rate for services 

and provisions for reimbursement of administrative Law judge travel expenses and video teLeconferencing 

expenses attributable to hearings conducted on behalf of these entities. The contract rate must be based on a 

total-cost-recovery methodology. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 9, ch. 75-191; s. 14, ch. 76-131; s. 9, ch. 78-425; s. 46, ch. 79-190; s. 1, ch. 86-297; s. 46, ch. 87- 

6; s. 25, ch. 87-101; s. 54, ch. 88-1; s. 30, ch. 88-277; s. 51, ch. 92-279; s. 23, ch. 92-315; s. 55, ch. 92-326; s. 764, ch. 95-147; s. 

31, ch. 96-159; s. 13, ch. 97-176; s. 38, ch. 2000-371; s. 4, ch. 2001-91; s. 1, ch. 2004-247; s. 8, ch. 2006-82; s. 14, ch. 2007-217; 

s. 8, ch. 2009-228. 

120.651 Designation of two administrative law judges to preside over actions involving department or 

boards.—The Division of Administrative Hearings shalL designate at least two administrative Law judges who 

shall specifically preside over actions involving the Department of HeaLth or boards within the Department of 

Health. Each designated administrative Law judge must be a member of The Florida Bar in good standing and 

must have legal, managerial, or cLinical experience in issues related to heaLth care or have attained board 

certification in heaLth care law from The Florida Bar. 



History.—s. 32, ch. 2003-416. 

I 20.655Withholding funds to pay for administrative law judge services to school boards.—If a district 

school board fails to make a timely payment for the services provided by an administrative Law judge of the 

Division of Administrative Hearings as provided annually in the GeneraL Appropriations Act, the Commissioner 

of Education shall withhoLd, from any generaL revenue funds the district is eligible to receive, an amount 

sufficient to pay for the administrative law judge's services. The commissioner shall transfer the amount 

withheld to the Division of Administrative Hearings in payment of such services. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 92-121; s. 32, ch. 96-159. 

120. 66Ex parte communications.— 

(1)In any proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57, no ex parte communication reLative to the merits, 

threat, or offer of reward shall be made to the agency head, after the agency head has received a 

recommended order, or to the presiding officer by: 

(a)An agency head or member of the agency or any other public employee or official engaged in 

prosecution or advocacy in connection with the matter under consideration or a factually reLated matter. 

(b)A party to the proceeding, the party's authorized representative or counsel, or any person who, 

directly or indirectly, wouLd have a substantiaL interest in the proposed agency action. 

Nothing in this subsection shall appLy to advisory staff members who do not testify on behaLf of the agency 

in the proceeding or to any ruLemaking proceedings under s. 120.54. 

(2)A presiding officer, including an agency head or designee, who is involved in the decisionaL process and 

who receives an ex parte communication in vioLation of subsection (1) shaLl pLace on the record of the pending 

matter all written communications received, all written responses to such communications, and a 

memorandum stating the substance of all oraL communications received and all oraL responses made, and shall 

also advise all parties that such matters have been placed on the record. Any party desiring to rebut the ex 

parte communication shalL be aLlowed to do so, if such party requests the opportunity for rebuttal within 10 

days after notice of such communication. The presiding officer may, if necessary to eliminate the effect of an 

ex parte communication, withdraw from the proceeding, in which case the entity that appointed the presiding 

officer shall assign a successor. 

(3)Any person who makes an ex parte communication prohibited by subsection (1), and any presiding 

officer, including an agency head or designee, who fails to place in the record any such communication, is in 

violation of this act and may be assessed a civil penalty not to exceed $500 or be subjected to other 

disciplinary action. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 10, ch. 75-191; s. 12, ch. 76-131; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 10, ch. 78-425; s. 765, ch. 95-147; s. 33, ch. 

96-159; s. 14, ch. 97-176. 



120. 665Disqualification of agency personnel. 

(1)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 112.3143, any individual serving aLone or with others as an agency 

head may be disquaLified from serving in an agency proceeding for bias, prejudice, or interest when any party 

to the agency proceeding shows just cause by a suggestion filed within a reasonable period of time prior to 

the agency proceeding. If the disqualified individual was appointed, the appointing power may appoint a 

substitute to serve in the matter from which the individual is disqualified. If the individual is an elected 

official, the Governor may appoint a substitute to serve in the matter from which the individual is 

disqualified. However, if a quorum remains after the individual is disqualified, it shaLL not be necessary to 

appoint a substitute. 

(2)Any agency action taken by a duLy appointed substitute for a disquaLified individuaL shall be as 

conclusive and effective as if agency action had been taken by the agency as it was constituted prior to any 

substitution. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 12, ch. 78-425; s. 2, ch. 83-329; s. 767, ch. 95-147; s. 34, ch. 96-159. 

Note.—Former s. 120.71. 

I 20.68Judicial review.— 

(1 )A party who is adverseLy affected by final agency action is entitled to judiciaL review. A preliminary, 

procedural, or intermediate order of the agency or of an administrative law judge of the Division of 

Administrative Hearings is immediately reviewabLe if review of the final agency decision wouLd not provide an 

adequate remedy. 

(2)(a)Judicial review shall be sought in the appelLate district where the agency maintains its 

headquarters or where a party resides or as otherwise provided by law. All proceedings shalL be instituted by 

fiLing a notice of appeal or petition for review in accordance with the FLorida Rules of AppeLlate Procedure 

within 30 days after the rendition of the order being appealed. If the appeal is of an order rendered in a 

proceeding initiated under s. 120.56, the agency whose rule is being chaLLenged shaLL transmit a copy of the 

notice of appeal to the committee. 

(b)When proceedings under this chapter are consolidated for final hearing and the parties to the 

consolidated proceeding seek review of finaL or interlocutory orders in more than one district court of appeal, 

the courts of appeal are authorized to transfer and consoLidate the review proceedings. The court may 

transfer such appellate proceedings on its own motion, upon motion of a party to one of the appelLate 

proceedings, or by stipulation of the parties to the appellate proceedings. In determining whether to transfer 

a proceeding, the court may consider such factors as the interrelationship of the parties and the proceedings, 

the desirability of avoiding inconsistent resuLts in related matters, judicial economy, and the burden on the 

parties of reproducing the record for use in multiple appellate courts. 



(3)The filing of the petition does not itseLf stay enforcement of the agency decision, but if the agency 

decision has the effect of suspending or revoking a license, supersedeas shall be granted as a matter of right 

upon such conditions as are reasonable, unLess the court, upon petition of the agency, determines that a 

supersedeas would constitute a probable danger to the health, safety, or weLfare of the state. The agency 

also may grant a stay upon appropriate terms, but, whether or not the action has the effect of suspending or 

revoking a license, a petition to the agency for a stay is not a prerequisite to a petition to the court for 

supersedeas. In any event the court shall specify the conditions, if any, upon which the stay or supersedeas is 

granted. 

(4)Judicial review of any agency action shalL be confined to the record transmitted and any additions 

made thereto in accordance with paragraph (7)(a). 

(5)The record for judicial review shaLl be compiled in accordance with the FLorida Rules of AppeLlate 

Procedure. 

(6)(a)The reviewing court's decision may be mandatory, prohibitory, or declaratory in form, and it shall 

provide whatever relief is appropriate irrespective of the original form of the petition. The court may: 

1 .Order agency action required by Law; order agency exercise of discretion when required by Law; set 

aside agency action; remand the case for further agency proceedings; or decide the rights, privileges, 

obLigations, requirements, or procedures at issue between the parties; and 

2.Order such ancillary reLief as the court finds necessary to redress the effects of official action 

wrongfulLy taken or withheld. 

(b)If the court sets aside agency action or remands the case to the agency for further proceedings, it may 

make such interlocutory order as the court finds necessary to preserve the interests of any party and the 

public pending further proceedings or agency action. 

(7)The court shall remand a case to the agency for further proceedings consistent with the court's 

decision or set aside agency action, as appropriate, when it finds that: 

(a)There has been no hearing prior to agency action and the reviewing court finds that the vaLidity of the 

action depends upon disputed facts; 

(b)The agency's action depends on any finding of fact that is not supported by competent, substantiaL 

evidence in the record of a hearing conducted pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57; however, the court shall 

not substitute its judgment for that of the agency as to the weight of the evidence on any disputed finding of 

fact; 

(c)The fairness of the proceedings or the correctness of the action may have been impaired by a material 

error in procedure or a failure to follow prescribed procedure; 

(d)The agency has erroneously interpreted a provision of law and a correct interpretation compeLs a 

particular action; or 



(e)The agency's exercise of discretion was: 

1 .Outside the range of discretion delegated to the agency by law; 

2.Inconsistent with agency rule; 

3.Inconsistent with officially stated agency policy or a prior agency practice, if deviation therefrom is not 

explained by the agency; or 

4.Otherwise in violation of a constitutional or statutory provision; 

but the court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the agency on an issue of discretion. 

(8)Unless the court finds a ground for setting aside, modifying, remanding, or ordering agency action or 

ancillary relief under a specified provision of this section, it shall affirm the agency's action. 

(9)No petition challenging an agency rule as an invalid exercise of delegated legislative authority shall be 

instituted pursuant to this section, except to review an order entered pursuant to a proceeding under s. 

120.56 or an agency's findings of immediate danger, necessity, and procedural fairness prerequisite to the 

adoption of an emergency rule pursuant to s. 120.54(4), unless the sole issue presented by the petition is the 

constitutionality of a rule and there are no disputed issues of fact. 

(10)If an administrative law judge's final order depends on any fact found by the administrative law 

judge, the court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the administrative law judge as to the weight of 

the evidence on any disputed finding of fact. The court shall, however, set aside the final order of the 

administrative law judge or remand the case to the administrative law judge, if it finds that the final order 

depends on any finding of fact that is not supported by competent substantial evidence in the record of the 

proceeding. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 13, ch. 76-131; s. 38, ch. 77-104; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 11, ch. 78-425; s. 4, ch. 84-173; s. 7, ch. 87- 

385; s. 36, ch. 90-302; s. 6, ch. 91-30; s. 1, ch. 91-191; s. 10, ch. 92-166; s. 35, ch. 96-159; s. 15, ch. 97-176; s. 8, ch. 2003-94. 

120.69 Enforcement of agency action.— 

(1 )Except as otherwise provided by statute: 

(a)Any agency may seek enforcement of an action by filing a petition for enforcement, as provided in this 

section, in the circuit court where the subject matter of the enforcement is located. 

(b)A petition for enforcement of any agency action may be filed by any substantially interested person 

who is a resident of the state. However, no such action may be commenced: 

1 .Prior to 60 days after the petitioner has given notice of the violation of the agency action to the head 

of the agency concerned, the Attorney General, and any alleged violator of the agency action. 

2.If an agency has filed, and is diligently prosecuting, a petition for enforcement. 

(c)A petition for enforcement filed by a nongovernmental person shall be in the name of the State of 

Florida on the relation of the petitioner, and the doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel shall apply. 

(d)In an action brought under paragraph (b), the agency whose action is sought to be enforced, if not a 



party, may intervene as a matter of right. 

(2)A petition for enforcement may request declaratory relief; temporary or permanent equitable relief; 

any fine, forfeiture, penalty, or other remedy provided by statute; any combination of the foregoing; or, in 

the absence of any other specific statutory authority, a fine not to exceed $1 ,000. 

(3)After the court has rendered judgment on a petition for enforcement, no other petition shall be filed 

or adjudicated against the same agency action, on the basis of the same transaction or occurrence, unless 

expressly authorized on remand. The doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel shall apply, and the 

court shall make such orders as are necessary to avoid multiplicity of actions. 

(4)In all enforcement proceedings: 

(a)If enforcement depends on any facts other than those appearing in the record, the court may ascertain 

such facts under procedures set forth in s. 120.68(7)(a). 

(b)If one or more petitions for enforcement and a petition for review involving the same agency action 

are pending at the same time, the court considering the review petition may order all such actions transferred 

to and consolidated in one court. Each party shall be under an affirmative duty to notify the court when it 

becomes aware of multiple proceedings. 

(c)Should any party willfully fail to comply with an order of the court, the court shall punish that party in 

accordance with the law applicable to contempt committed by a person in the trial of any other action. 

(5)In any enforcement proceeding the respondent may assert as a defense the invalidity of any relevant 

statute, the inapplicability of the administrative determination to respondent, compliance by the respondent, 

the inappropriateness of the remedy sought by the agency, or any combination of the foregoing. In addition, if 

the petition for enforcement is filed during the time within which the respondent could petition for judicial 

review of the agency action, the respondent may assert the invalidity of the agency action. 

(6)Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, upon receipt of evidence that an alleged violation 

of an agency's action presents an imminent and substantial threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, the 

agency may bring suit for immediate temporary relief in an appropriate circuit court, and the granting of such 

temporary relief shall not have res judicata or collateral estoppel effect as to further relief sought under a 

petition for enforcement relating to the same violation. 

(7)In any final order on a petition for enforcement the court may award to the prevailing party all or part 

of the costs of litigation and reasonable attorney's fees and expert witness fees, whenever the court 

determines that such an award is appropriate. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 74-310; s. 766, ch. 95-147; s. 36, ch. 96-159. 

120.695Notice of noncompliance.— 

(1 )It is the policy of the state that the purpose of regulation is to protect the public by attaining 

compliance with the policies established by the Legislature. Fines and other penalties may be provided in 



order to assure compliance; however, the coLLection of fines and the imposition of penaLties are intended to 

be secondary to the primary goal of attaining compliance with an agency's rules. It is the intent of the 

Legislature that an agency charged with enforcing rules shall issue a notice of noncompLiance as its first 

response to a minor violation of a rule in any instance in which it is reasonable to assume that the violator was 

unaware of the rule or unclear as to how to comply with it. 

(2)(a)Each agency shaLl issue a notice of noncompLiance as a first response to a minor violation of a rule. 

A "notice of noncompliance" is a notification by the agency charged with enforcing the ruLe issued to the 

person or business subject to the ruLe. A notice of noncompliance may not be accompanied with a fine or 

other disciplinary penalty. It must identify the specific rule that is being violated, provide information on how 

to comply with the rule, and specify a reasonabLe time for the violator to comply with the ruLe. A ruLe is 

agency action that regulates a business, occupation, or profession, or reguLates a person operating a business, 

occupation, or profession, and that, if not compLied with, may resuLt in a discipLinary penalty. 

(b)Each agency shaLl review alL of its rules and designate those for which a vioLation wouLd be a minor 

violation and for which a notice of noncompLiance must be the first enforcement action taken against a person 

or business subject to regulation. A vioLation of a rule is a minor violation if it does not resuLt in economic or 

physical harm to a person or adverseLy affect the public health, safety, or weLfare or create a significant 

threat of such harm. If an agency under the direction of a cabinet officer maiLs to each licensee a notice of 

the designated rules at the time of Licensure and at least annualLy thereafter, the provisions of paragraph (a) 

may be exercised at the discretion of the agency. Such notice shaLl include a subject-matter index of the ruLes 

and information on how the rules may be obtained. 

(c)The agency's review and designation must be completed by December 1, 1995; each agency under the 

direction of the Governor shall make a report to the Governor, and each agency under the joint direction of 

the Governor and Cabinet shall report to the Governor and Cabinet by January 1, 1996, on which of its rules 

have been designated as ruLes the violation of which would be a minor violation. 

(d)The Governor or the Governor and Cabinet, as appropriate pursuant to paragraph (c), may evaluate 

the review and designation effects of each agency and may apply a different designation than that appLied by 

the agency. 

(e)This section does not apply to the regulation of law enforcement personnel or teachers. 

(f)Designation pursuant to this section is not subject to challenge under this chapter. 

History.—s. 1, ch. 95-402. 

I 20.72Legislative intent; references to chapter 1 20 or portions thereof.—Unless expressly provided 

otherwise, a reference in any section of the Florida Statutes to chapter 120 or to any section or sections or 

portion of a section of chapter 120 incLudes, and shall be understood as including, aLl subsequent amendments 

to chapter 120 or to the referenced section or sections or portions of a section. 



History.—s. 3, ch. 74-310; s. 1, ch. 76-207; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 57, ch. 78-95; s. 13, ch. 78-425; s. 38, ch. 96-159. 

I 20.73Circuit court proceedings; declaratory judgments.—Nothing in this chapter shaLl be construed to 

repeal any provision of the Florida Statutes which grants the right to a proceeding in the circuit court in lieu 

of an administrative hearing or to divest the circuit courts of jurisdiction to render decLaratory judgments 

under the provisions of chapter 86. 

History.—s. 11, ch. 75-191; s. 14, ch. 78-425. 

I 20.74Agency review, revision, and report.— 

(1 )Each agency shalL review and revise its rules as often as necessary to ensure that its ruLes are correct 

and comply with statutory requirements. AdditionaLly, each agency shall perform a formal review of its rules 

every 2 years. In the review, each agency must: 

(a)Identify and correct deficiencies in its rules; 

(b)Clarify and simplify its ruLes; 

(c)Delete obsolete or unnecessary ruLes; 

(d)Delete rules that are redundant of statutes; 

(e)Seek to improve efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private 

sector; 

(f)Contact agencies that have concurrent or overLapping jurisdiction to determine whether their rules can 

be coordinated to promote efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private 

sector; and 

(g)Determine whether the ruLes shouLd be continued without change or should be amended or repealed to 

reduce the impact on smalL business whiLe meeting the stated objectives of the proposed rule. 

(2)Beginning October 1, 1997, and by October 1 of every other year thereafter, the head of each agency 

shall file a report with the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the 

committee, with a copy to each appropriate standing committee of the LegisLature, which certifies that the 

agency has complied with the requirements of this section. The report must specify any changes made to its 

rules as a result of the review and, when appropriate, recommend statutory changes that will promote 

efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private sector. The report must 

specifically address the economic impact of the rules on small business. The report must identify the types of 

cases or disputes in which the agency is invoLved which should be conducted under the summary hearing 

process described in s. 120.574. 

(3)Beginning in 2012, and no Later than July 1 of each year, each agency shalL file with the President of 

the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the committee a reguLatory pLan identifying and 

describing each rule the agency proposes to adopt for the 12-month period beginning on the July 1 reporting 



date and ending on the subsequent June 30, excLuding emergency rules. 

(4)For the year 2011, the certification required in subsection (2) may omit any information incLuded in 

the reports provided under s. 120.745. Reporting under subsections (1) and (2) shall be suspended for the year 

2013, but required reporting under those subsections shall resume in 2015 and biennialLy thereafter. 

History.—s. 46, ch. 96-399; s. 16, ch. 97-176; s. 9, ch. 2006-82; s. 15, ch. 2008-104; s. 8, ch. 2008-149; s. 4, ch. 2011-225. 

I 20.745Legislative review of agency rules in effect on or before November 16, 2010.— 

(1 )DEFINITIONS.—The following definitions appLy exclusively to this section: 

(a)"Agency" has the same meaning and application as provided in s. 120.52(1), but for the purposes of 

this section excludes each officer and governmental entity in the state with jurisdiction in one county or less 

than one county. 

(b)"Compliance economic review" means a good faith economic analysis that includes and presents the 

following information pertaining to a particuLar rule: 

1 .A justification for the rule summarizing the benefits of the rule; and 

2.A statement of estimated reguLatory costs as described in s. 120.541 (2); however: 

a.The applicable period for the economic anaLysis shall be 5 years beginning on July 1, 2011; 

b.For the analysis required in s. 120.541(2)(a)3., the estimated regulatory costs over the 5-year period 

shall be used instead of the likely increase in regulatory costs after implementation; and 

c.An explanation of the methodology used to conduct the analysis must be provided. A technical 

methodology need not be used to develop the statement of estimated regulatory costs, if the agency uses 

routine regulatory communications or its Internet website to reasonably survey regulated entities, poLitical 

subdivisions, and local governments and makes good faith estimates of reguLatory costs in conformity with 

recommendations from the Office of Fiscal Accountability and Regulatory Reform ("OFARR"), or from one or 

more legislative offices if requested by the agency and such request is approved by the President of the 

Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. 

(c)"Data collection ruLes" means those rules requiring the submission of data to the agency from external 

sources, including, but not limited to, locaL governments, service providers, clients, Licensees, regulated 

entities, other constituents, and market participants. 

(d)"Revenue ruLes" means those ruLes fixing amounts or providing for the collection of money. 

(e)"Rule" has the same general meaning and application as provided in s. 120.52(16), but for purposes of 

this section may include only those rules for which publication in the Florida Administrative Code is required 

pursuant to s. 120.55(1). As used in this section, the term "rule" means each entire statement and all 

subparts published under a complete title, chapter, and decimal ruLe number in the FLorida Administrative 

Code in compliance with FLorida Administrative Code Rule 1 B-30.001. 

(2)ENHANCED BIENNIAL REVIEW.—By December 1, 2011, each agency shall compLete an enhanced biennial 



review of the agency's existing rules, which shall include, but is not Limited to: 

(a)Conduct of the review and submission of the report required by s. 120.74 and an explanation of how 

the agency has accompLished the requirements of s. 120.74(1). This paragraph extends the October 1 deadline 

provided in s. 120.74(2) for the year 2011. 

(b)Review of each rule to determine whether the rule has been reviewed by OFARR pursuant to the 

Governor's Executive Order 2011-01. 

(c)Review of each rule to determine whether the ruLe is a revenue ruLe, to identify the statute or 

statutes authorizing the coLLection of any revenue, to identify the fund or account into which revenue 

collections are deposited, and, for each revenue ruLe, to determine whether the rule authorizes, imposes, or 

implements: 

1 .Registration, license, or inspection fees. 

2.Transportation service tolls for road, bridge, rail, air, waterway, or port access. 

3.Fees for a specific service or purpose not included in subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. 

4.Fines, penalties, costs, or attorney fees. 

5.Any tax. 

6.Any other amounts colLected that are not covered under subparagraphs 1 .-5. 

(d)Review of each rule to determine whether the rule is a data collection ruLe, providing the folLowing 

information for each rule determined to be a data colLection rule: 

1 .The statute or statutes authorizing the coLlection of such data. 

2.The purposes for which the agency uses the data and any purpose for which the data is used by others. 

3.The policies supporting the reporting and retention of the data. 

4.Whether and to what extent the data is exempt from public inspection under chapter 119. 

(e)Identification of each entire rule the agency pLans to repeal and, if so, the estimated timetabLe for 

repeal. 

(f)Identification of each entire ruLe or subpart of a rule the agency pLans to amend to substantially 

reduce the economic impact and the estimated timetable for amendment. 

(g)Identification of each rule for which the agency will be required to prepare a compLiance economic 

review, to include each entire rule that: 

1.The agency does not pLan to repeal on or before December 31, 2012; 

2.Was effective on or before November 16, 2010; and 

3.Probably will have any of the economic impacts described in s. 120.541 (2)(a), for 5 years beginning on 

JuLy 1, 2011, excLuding in such estimation any part or subpart identified for amendment under paragraph (f). 

(h)Listing of all rules identified for compLiance economic review in paragraph (g), divided into two 

approximately equaL groups, identified as "Group 1" and "Group 2." Such division shalL be made at the 





(h)Column 8: Effective on or before 11/16/2010. Entries should be "Y" or "N." 

(i)Column 9: Section 120.541 (2)(a) impacts. Entries should be "NA" if Column 8 is "N" or, if CoLumn 6 is 

"Y," "NP" for not probable, based on the response required in subparagraph (2)(g)3., or "1" or "2," reflecting 

the group number assigned by the division required in paragraph (2)(h). 

(4)PUBLIC COMMENT ON ENHANCED BIENNIAL REVIEW AND REPORT; OBJECTIONS.—PubLic input on reports 

required in subsection (3) may be provided by stating an objection to the information required in paragraphs 

(2)(b), (c), (d), and (g) and identifying the entire rule or any subpart to which the objection relates, and shall 

be submitted in writing or eLectronicaLLy to the person designated in the report. 

(a)An objection under this subsection to a report that an entire ruLe or any subpart probably wiLL not 

have, for 5 years beginning on July 1, 2011, any of the economic impacts described ins. 120.541(2)(a), must 

include allegations of fact upon which the objection is based, stating the precise information upon which a 

contrary evaluation of probable impact may be made. Allegations of fact related to other objections may be 

included. 

(b)Objections may be submitted by any interested person no later than June 1, 2012. 

(c)The agency shalL determine whether to sustain an objection based upon the information provided with 

the objection and whether any further review of information available to the agency is necessary to correct 

its report. 

(d)No later than 20 days after the date an objection is submitted, the agency shall pubLish its 

determination of the objection in the manner provided in subsection (7). 

(e)The agency's determination with respect to an objection is final but not a finaL agency action subject 

to further proceedings, hearing, or judicial review. 

(f)If the agency sustains an objection, it shaLl amend its report within 10 days after the determination. 

The amended report shaLl indicate that a change has been made, the date of the last change, and identify the 

amended portions. The agency shall publish notice of the amendment in the manner provided in subsection 

(7). 

(g)On or before July 1, 2012, the agency shaLL deLiver a written certification of the agency head or 

designee to the committee verifying the compLetion of determinations of all objections under this subsection 

and of any report amendments required under paragraph (f). The certification shall be published as an 

addendum to the report required in subsection (3). Notice of the certification shall be published in the 

manner provided in subsection (7). 

(5)COMPLIANCE ECONOMIC REVIEW OF RULES AND REQUIRED REPORT.—Each agency shall perform a 

compLiance economic review and report for aLL ruLes, including separate reviews of subparts, listed under 

Group 1 "Group 1 rules" or Group 2 "Group 2 rules" pursuant to subparagraph (2)(g)3. Group 1 rules shaLL be 

reviewed and reported on in 2012, and Group 2 rules shall be reviewed and reported on in 2013. 





6.The written certification of the agency head to the committee verifying the completion of the reviews 

and reporting required under this subsection for that year. The certification shalL be dated and pubLished as 

an addendum to the report required in subsection (3). The duty to certify completion of the report is the 

responsibility solely of the agency head as defined in s. 120.52(3) and may not be deLegated to any other 

person. If the defined agency head is a collegial body, the written certification must be prepared by the chair 

or equivalent presiding officer of that body. 

(e)Notice of publication of the finaL report and certification shall be published in the manner provided in 

subsection (7). 

(f)By December 1, each agency shaLL begin proceedings under s. 120.54(3) to amend or repeaL those rules 

so designated in the report under this subsection. Proceedings to repeal rules are exempt from the 

requirements for the preparation, consideration, or use of a statement of estimated reguLatory costs under s. 

120.54 and the provisions of s. 120.541. 

(6)LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATION.—With respect to a ruLe identified for retention without amendment in 

the report required in subsection (5), the LegisLature may consider specific legislation nullifying the rule or 

altering the statutory authority for the ruLe. 

(7)MANNER OF PUBLICATION OF NOTICES, DETERMINATIONS, AND REPORTS.—Agencies shall publish 

notices, determinations, and reports required under this section exclusively in the foLlowing manner: 

(a)The agency shaLL pubLish each notice, determination, and complete report on its Internet website. If 

the agency does not have an Internet website, the information shall be published on the committee's Internet 

website using agency name]! in place of the address of the agency's Internet website. 

The following URL formats shall be used: 

1 .Reports required under subsection (3), incLuding any reports amended as a result of a determination 

under subsection (4): 

Address of agency's Internet website]!201 1_Rule_review! 

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) titLe and subtitle (if applicable) designation for the ruLes incLuded]. 

(Example: http: !!www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_Rule_review! iS). 

2.The lists of Group 1 rules and Group 2 rules, required under subsection (3): 

Address of agency's Internet website]!201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review!Schedule. 

(Example: http: !!www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_RuLe_review! 

Economic_Review!Schedule). 

3.Determinations under subsection (4): 

Address of agency's Internet website]!201 1_Rule_review! 

Objection_Determination! F.A.C. RuLe number]. 



(Example: http: //www.dos.state.fl.us/201 1_Rule_review! 

Objection_Determination /15-1 .001). 

4.Completed compliance economic reviews reported under subsection (5): 

Address of agency's Internet website]/201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review! F.A.C. Rule number]. 

(Example: http: //www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review/iS-i .001). 

5.Final reports under paragraph (5)(d), with the appropriate year: 

Address of agency's Internet website]/201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review! YYYY_Final_Report]. 

(Example: http: //www.dos.state.fl.us!201 1_Rule_review! 

Economic_Review!201 2_Final_Report). 

(b)1 .Each notice shall be published using the following URL format: 

Address of agency's Internet website]/ 

2011_Rule_review! Notices. 

(Example: http: / /www.dos.state.fl. us!201 1_Rule_review! Notices). 

2.Once each week a copy of all notices published in the previous week on the Internet under this 

paragraph shall be delivered to the Department of State, for publication in the next available issue of the 

Florida Administrative Weekly, and a copy shall be delivered by electronic mail to the committee. 

3.Each notice shall identify the publication for which notice is being given and include: 

a.The name of the agency. 

b.The name, physical address, fax number, and e-mail address for the person designated to receive all 

inquiries, public comments, and objections pertaining to the publication identified in the notice. 

c.The particular Internet address through which the publication may be accessed. 

d.The date the notice and publication is first published on the agency's Internet website. 

(c)Publication pursuant to this section is deemed to be complete as of the date the notice, 

determination, or report is posted on the agency's Internet website. 

(8)FAILURE TO FILE CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION.—If an agency fails to timely file any written 

certification required in paragraph (2)(i), paragraph (4)(g), subparagraph (5)(a)2., or subparagraph (5)(d)6., 

the entire rulemaking authority delegated to the agency by the Legislature under any statute or law shall be 

suspended automatically as of the due date of the required certification and shall remain suspended until the 

date that the agency files the required certification with the committee. 

(a)During the period of any suspension under this subsection, the agency has no authority to engage in 

rulemaking under s. 120.54. 



(b)A suspension under this subsection does not authorize an agency to promulgate any statement defined 

as a rule under s. 120.52(16). 

(c)A suspension under this subsection shaLt toLL the time requirements under s. 120.54 for any rulemaking 

proceeding the agency initiated before the date of suspension, which time requirements shalL resume on the 

date the agency files the written certification with the committee and pubLishes notice of the required 

certification in the manner provided in subsection (7). 

(d)Failure to timely file a written certification required under paragraph (2)(i) toLls the time for public 

response, which period shaLL not begin untiL the date the agency fiLes the written certification with the 

committee and publishes notice of the required certification in the manner provided in subsection (7). The 

period for public response shall be extended by the number of days equivalent to the period of suspension 

under this subsection. 

(e)Failure to timeLy fiLe a written certification required under subparagraph (5)(a)2. shaLl toLl the 

deadline for submission of lower cost regulatory aLternatives for any rule or subpart for which a compliance 

economic review has not been timeLy published. The period of tolling shall be the number of days after May 1 

until the date of the certification as published. 

(9)EXEMPTION FROM ENHANCED BIENNIAL REVIEW AND COMPLIANCE ECONOMIC REVIEW.— 

(a)An agency is exempt from subsections (1 )-(8) if it has cooperated or cooperates with OFARR in a 

review of the agency's rules in a manner consistent with Executive Order 2011 -01, or any alternative review 

directed by OFARR; if the agency or OFARR identifies each data coLlection ruLe and each revenue rule; and if 

the information developed thereby becomes pubLicly available on the Internet by December 1, 2011. Each 

such agency is exempt from the biennial review required in s. 120.74(2) for the year 2011. 

(b)For each rule reviewed under this subsection, OFARR may identify whether the ruLe imposes a 

significant regulatory cost or economic impact and shall schedule and obtain or direct a reasonable economic 

estimate of such cost and impact for each rule so identified. A report on each such estimate shaLL be published 

on the Internet by December 31, 2013. On or before October 1,2013, the agency head shaLl certify in writing 

to the committee that the agency has completed each economic estimate required under this paragraph, and 

thereupon the agency is exempt from the bienniaL review required ins. 120.74(2) for the year 2013. 

(c)The exemption under this paragraph does not appLy unless the agency head certifies in writing to the 

committee, on or before October 1, 2011, that the agency has chosen such exemption and has cooperated 

with OFARR in undertaking the review required in paragraph (a). 

(10)REPEAL.—This section is repeaLed July 1, 2014. 

History.—s. 5, ch. 2011-225; s. 10, ch. 2012-5; s. 3, ch. 2012-27. 

Note.—The words "the ombudsman's" were substituted by the editors for the word "its." 

I 20.7455Legislative survey of regulatory impacts.— 



(1)From July 1,2011, until July 1, 2014, the Legislature may estabLish and maintain an Internet-based 

public survey of regulatory impact soliciting information from the public regarding the kind and degree of 

regulation affecting private activities in the state. The input may incLude, but need not be limited to: 

(a)The registered business name or other name of each reporting person. 

(b)The number and identity of agencies licensing, inspecting, registering, permitting, or otherwise 

regulating lawful activities of the reporting person. 

(c)The types, numbers, and nature of Licenses, permits, and registrations required for various Lawful 

activities of the reporting person. 

(d)The identity of local, state, and federaL agencies, and other entities acting under coLor of law which 

regulate the Lawful activities of the reporting person or otherwise exercise power to enforce laws appLicable 

to such activities. 

(e)The identification and nature of each ordinance, law, or administrative rule or reguLation deemed 

unreasonably burdensome by the reporting person. 

(2)The President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives may certify in writing to 

the chair of the committee and to the Attorney GeneraL the establishment and identity of any Internet- based 

public survey established under this section. 

(3)Any person reporting or otherwise providing information solicited by the Legislature in conformity with 

this section is immune from any enforcement action or prosecution that: 

(a)Is instituted on account of, or in reLiance upon, the fact of reporting or nonreporting of information in 

response to the Legislature's soLicitation of information pursuant to this section; or 

(b)Uses information provided in response to the Legislature's solicitation of information pursuant to this 

section. 

(4)Any alleged violator against whom an enforcement action is brought may object to any proposed 

penalty in excess of the minimum provided by law or rule on the basis that the action is in retaLiation for the 

violator providing or withholding any information in response to the LegisLature's soLicitation of information 

pursuant to this section. If the presiding judge determines that the enforcement action was motivated in 

whole or in part by retaLiation, any penalty imposed is limited to the minimum penaLties provided by Law for 

each separate violation adjudicated. 

History.—s. 6, ch. 2011-225. 

I 20.80Exceptions and special requirements; agencies.— 

(1 )DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS.— 

(a)Division as a party.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), a hearing in which the division is a party may not 

be conducted by an administrative Law judge assigned by the division. An attorney assigned by the 

Administration Commission shall be the hearing officer. 



(b)Workers' compensation.—Notwithstanding s. 120.52(1), a judge of compensation claims, in 

adjudicating matters under chapter 440, is not an agency or part of an agency for purposes of this chapter. 

(2)DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES.— 

(a)Marketing orders under chapter 527, chapter 573, or chapter 601 are not ruLes. 

(b)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings held by the Department of AgricuLture and Consumer 

Services pursuant to chapter 601 need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the 

division. 

(3)OFFICE OF FINANCIAL REGULATION.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.60(1), in proceedings for the issuance, denial, renewal, or amendment of a 

license or approval of a merger pursuant to titLe XXXVIII: 

1 .a.The Office of FinanciaL ReguLation of the Financial Services Commission shall have pubLished in the 

Florida Administrative Weekly notice of the application within 21 days after receipt. 

b.Within 21 days after pubLication of notice, any person may request a hearing. FaiLure to request a 

hearing within 21 days after notice constitutes a waiver of any right to a hearing. The Office of Financial 

Regulation or an applicant may request a hearing at any time prior to the issuance of a finaL order. Hearings 

shall be conducted pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57, except that the Financial Services Commission shall by 

rule provide for participation by the generaL pubLic. 

2.Should a hearing be requested as provided by sub-subparagraph 1 .b., the applicant or Licensee shaLL 

publish at its own cost a notice of the hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by 

the application. The FinanciaL Services Commission may by rule specify the format and size of the notice. 

3.Notwithstanding s. 120.60(1), and except as provided in subparagraph 4., every appLication for license 

for a new bank, new trust company, new credit union, or new savings and Loan association shall be approved 

or denied within 180 days after receipt of the original application or receipt of the timely requested 

additional information or correction of errors or omissions. Any application for such a license or for acquisition 

of such control which is not approved or denied within the 180-day period or within 30 days after conclusion 

of a public hearing on the application, whichever is Later, shall be deemed approved subject to the 

satisfactory completion of conditions required by statute as a prerequisite to License and approvaL of 

insurance of accounts for a new bank, a new savings and loan association, or a new credit union by the 

appropriate insurer. 

4.In the case of every application for License to establish a new bank, trust company, or capitaL stock 

savings association in which a foreign national proposes to own or control 10 percent or more of any class of 

voting securities, and in the case of every appLication by a foreign national for approvaL to acquire control of a 

bank, trust company, or capitaL stock savings association, the Office of FinanciaL Regulation shall request that 

a public hearing be conducted pursuant to ss. 120.569 and 120.57. Notice of such hearing shall be pubLished by 



the applicant as provided in subparagraph 2. The failure of any such foreign nationaL to appear personally at 

the hearing shalL be grounds for denial of the appLication. Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 120.60(1) and 

subparagraph 3., every appLication invoLving a foreign national shalL be approved or denied within 1 year after 

receipt of the originaL appLication or any timely requested additionaL information or the correction of any 

errors or omissions, or within 30 days after the conclusion of the public hearing on the appLication, whichever 

is later. 

(b)In any application for a license or merger pursuant to title XXXVIII which is referred by the agency to 

the division for hearing, the administrative Law judge shall complete and submit to the agency and to all 

parties a written report consisting of findings of fact and rulings on evidentiary matters. The agency shall 

allow each party at least 10 days in which to submit written exceptions to the report. 

(4)DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION.— 

(a)Business regulation.—The Division of Pari-mutueL Wagering is exempt from the hearing and notice 

requirements of ss. 120.569 and 120.57(1)(a), but only for stewards, judges, and boards of judges when the 

hearing is to be heLd for the purpose of the imposition of fines or suspensions as provided by rules of the 

Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering, but not for revocations, and only upon vioLations of subparagraphs 1 . -6. The 

Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering shaLL adopt rules establishing alternative procedures, including a hearing 

upon reasonable notice, for the following vioLations: 

1 .Horse riding, harness riding, greyhound interference, and jai alai game actions in violation of chapter 

550. 

2.Application and usage of drugs and medication to horses, greyhounds, and jai alai players in violation of 

chapter 550. 

3.Maintaining or possessing any device which could be used for the injection or other infusion of a 

prohibited drug to horses, greyhounds, and jai aLai players in violation of chapter 550. 

4.Suspensions under reciprocity agreements between the Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering and regulatory 

agencies of other states. 

5.Assault or other crimes of violence on premises Licensed for pari-mutueL wagering. 

6.Prearranging the outcome of any race or game. 

(b)Professional regulation.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), formaL hearings may not be conducted by 

the Secretary of Business and Professional ReguLation or a board or member of a board within the Department 

of Business and Professional Regulation for matters relating to the regulation of professions, as defined by 

chapter 455. 

(5)FLORIDA LAND AND WATER ADJUDICATORY COMMISSION.—Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 

120.57(1)(a), when the Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission receives a notice of appeal pursuant 

to s. 380.07, the commission shaLl notify the division within 60 days after receipt of the notice of appeal if the 



commission elects to request the assignment of an administrative law judge. 

(6)DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT.—Law enforcement poLicies and procedures of the Department of 

Law Enforcement which relate to the following are not rules as defined by this chapter: 

(a)The collection, management, and dissemination of active criminal inteLLigence information and active 

criminal investigative information; management of criminal investigations; and management of undercover 

investigations and the seLection, assignment, and fictitious identity of undercover personneL. 

(b)The recruitment, management, identity, and remuneration of confidential informants or sources. 

(c)Surveillance techniques, the seLection of surveillance personnel, and eLectronic surveillance, incLuding 

court-ordered and consensuaL interceptions of communication conducted pursuant to chapter 934. 

(d)The safety and release of hostages. 

(e)The provision of security and protection to pubLic figures. 

(f)The protection of witnesses. 

(7)DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), hearings 

conducted within the Department of ChiLdren and Family Services in the execution of those social and 

economic programs administered by the former Division of Family Services of the former Department of 

Health and RehabiLitative Services prior to the reorganization effected by chapter 75-48, Laws of Florida, 

need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. 

(8)DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES.— 

(a)Drivers' licenses. 

1 .Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), hearings regarding drivers' licensing pursuant to chapter 322 need not 

be conducted by an administrative Law judge assigned by the division. 

2.Notwithstanding s. 120.60(5), canceLLation, suspension, or revocation of a driver's license shaLl be by 

personal delivery to the Licensee or by first-class mail as provided in s. 322.251. 

(b)Wrecker operators.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings held by the Division of the Florida 

Highway Patrol of the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to deny, suspend, or remove a 

wrecker operator from participating in the wrecker rotation system established by s. 321 .051 need not be 

conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. These hearings shaLL be heLd by a hearing 

officer appointed by the director of the Division of the Florida Highway PatroL. 

(9)OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION.—Notwithstanding s. 120.60(1), every application for a certificate 

of authority as required by s. 624.401 shaLL be approved or denied within 180 days after receipt of the original 

application. Any appLication for a certificate of authority which is not approved or denied within the 180-day 

period, or within 30 days after conclusion of a public hearing held on the appLication, shalL be deemed 

approved, subject to the satisfactory completion of conditions required by statute as a prerequisite to 

licensure. 



(10)DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.54, the rulemaking provisions of this chapter do not apply to reempLoyment 

assistance appeaLs referees. 

(b)Notwithstanding s. 120.54(5), the uniform ruLes of procedure do not apply to appeal proceedings 

conducted under chapter 443 by the Reemployment Assistance Appeals Commission, special deputies, or 

reemployment assistance appeaLs referees. 

(c)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings under chapter 443 may not be conducted by an 

administrative law judge assigned by the division, but instead shaLL be conducted by the Reemployment 

Assistance Appeals Commission in reemployment assistance appeals, reempLoyment assistance appeaLs 

referees, and the Department of Economic Opportunity or its special deputies under s. 443.141. 

(11 )NATIONAL GUARD. —Notwithstanding s. 120.52(16), the enlistment, organization, administration, 

equipment, maintenance, training, and discipLine of the militia, NationaL Guard, organized militia, and 

unorganized militia, as provided by s. 2, Art. X of the State Constitution, are not ruLes as defined by this 

chapter. 

(1 2)PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RELATIONS COMMISSION.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings within the jurisdiction of the Public EmpLoyees ReLations 

Commission need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. 

(b)Section 120.60 does not appLy to certification of employee organizations pursuant to s. 447.307. 

(13)FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.— 

(a)Agency statements that reLate to cost-recovery clauses, factors, or mechanisms implemented pursuant 

to chapter 366, reLating to public utiLities, are exempt from the provisions of s. 120.54(1)(a). 

(b)Notwithstanding ss. 120.569 and 120.57, a hearing on an objection to proposed action of the FLorida 

Public Service Commission may only address the issues in dispute. Issues in the proposed action which are not 

in dispute are deemed stipuLated. 

(c)The Florida Public Service Commission is exempt from the time limitations in s. 120.60(1) when issuing 

a license. 

(d)Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, in implementing the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 

Pub. L. No. 104-104, the PubLic Service Commission is authorized to employ procedures consistent with that 

act. 

(e)Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, s. 350.128, or s. 364.381, appelLate jurisdiction for 

Public Service Commission decisions that impLement the Telecommunications Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104- 

104, shall be consistent with the provisions of that act. 

(f)Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter, all public utilities and companies reguLated by the 

Public Service Commission shall be entitLed to proceed under the interim rate provisions of chapter 364 or the 



procedures for interim rates contained in chapter 74-195, Laws of Florida, or as otherwise provided by law. 

(14)DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE.— 

(a)Assessments.—An assessment of tax, penaLty, or interest by the Department of Revenue is not a final 

order as defined by this chapter. Assessments by the Department of Revenue shall be deemed final as 

provided in the statutes and ruLes governing the assessment and collection of taxes. 

(b)Taxpayer contest proceedings.— 

1 .In any administrative proceeding brought pursuant to this chapter as authorized by s. 72.011(1), the 

taxpayer shall be designated the "petitioner" and the Department of Revenue shall be designated the 

"respondent," except that for actions contesting an assessment or denial of refund under chapter 207, the 

Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles shall be designated the "respondent," and for actions 

contesting an assessment or denial of refund under chapters 210, 550, 561, 562, 563, 564, and 565, the 

Department of Business and ProfessionaL Regulation shall be designated the "respondent." 

2.In any such administrative proceeding, the applicable department's burden of proof, except as 

otherwise specifically provided by general law, shall be limited to a showing that an assessment has been 

made against the taxpayer and the factual and legal grounds upon which the applicabLe department made the 

assessment. 

3.a.Prior to filing a petition under this chapter, the taxpayer shall pay to the appLicabLe department the 

amount of taxes, penaLties, and accrued interest assessed by that department which are not being contested 

by the taxpayer. FaiLure to pay the uncontested amount shall result in the dismissal of the action and 

imposition of an additionaL penalty of 25 percent of the amount taxed. 

b.The requirements of s. 72.011(2) and (3)(a) are jurisdictional for any action under this chapter to 

contest an assessment or denial of refund by the Department of Revenue, the Department of Highway Safety 

and Motor Vehicles, or the Department of Business and Professional Regulation. 

4.Except as provided in s. 220.719, further coLlection and enforcement of the contested amount of an 

assessment for nonpayment or underpayment of any tax, interest, or penaLty shaLL be stayed beginning on the 

date a petition is filed. Upon entry of a finaL order, an agency may resume colLection and enforcement action. 

5.The prevailing party, in a proceeding under ss. 120.569 and 120.57 authorized by s. 72.011(1), may 

recover all legal costs incurred in such proceeding, including reasonabLe attorney's fees, if the Losing party 

fails to raise a justiciable issue of law or fact in its petition or response. 

6.Upon review pursuant to s. 120.68 of finaL agency action concerning an assessment of tax, penaLty, or 

interest with respect to a tax imposed under chapter 212, or the denial of a refund of any tax imposed under 

chapter 212, if the court finds that the Department of Revenue improperly rejected or modified a concLusion 

of Law, the court may award reasonabLe attorney's fees and reasonable costs of the appeal to the prevailing 

appellant. 



(c)Proceedings to establish paternity or paternity and child support; orders to appear for genetic 

testing; proceedings for administrative support orders.—In proceedings to establish paternity or paternity and 

child support pursuant to s. 409.256 and proceedings for the establishment of administrative support orders 

pursuant to s. 409.2563, final orders in cases referred by the Department of Revenue to the Division of 

Administrative Hearings shaLL be entered by the division's administrative law judge and transmitted to the 

Department of Revenue for filing and rendering. The Department of Revenue has the right to seek judicial 

review under s. 120.68 of a final order entered by an administrative law judge. The Department of Revenue or 

the person ordered to appear for genetic testing may seek immediate judiciaL review under s. 120.68 of an 

order issued by an administrative law judge pursuant to s. 409.256(5)(b). Final orders that adjudicate 

paternity or paternity and chiLd support pursuant to s. 409.256 and administrative support orders rendered 

pursuant to s. 409.2563 may be enforced pursuant to s. 120.69 or, aLternativeLy, by any method prescribed by 

law for the enforcement of judicial support orders, except contempt. Hearings heLd by the Division of 

Administrative Hearings pursuant to ss. 409.256, 409.2563, and 409.25635 shaLL be heLd in the judicial circuit 

where the person receiving services under Title IV-D resides or, if the person receiving services under Title IV- 

D does not reside in this state, in the judicial circuit where the respondent resides. If the department and the 

respondent agree, the hearing may be held in another Location. If ordered by the administrative law judge, 

the hearing may be conducted telephonicaLly or by videoconference. 

(15)DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.—Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), formaL hearings may not be conducted by 

the State Surgeon General, the Secretary of HeaLth Care Administration, or a board or member of a board 

within the Department of HeaLth or the Agency for Health Care Administration for matters reLating to the 

regulation of professions, as defined by chapter 456. Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1)(a), hearings conducted 

within the Department of HeaLth in execution of the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, 

Infants, and Children; ChiLd Care Food Program; Children's Medical Services Program; the Brain and Spinal 

Cord Injury Program; and the exemption from disquaLification reviews for certified nurse assistants program 

need not be conducted by an administrative law judge assigned by the division. The Department of HeaLth 

may contract with the Department of ChiLdren and Family Services for a hearing officer in these matters. 

(16)FLORIDA BUILDING COMMISSION.— 

(a)Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 120.542, the Florida Building Commission may not accept a 

petition for waiver or variance and may not grant any waiver or variance from the requirements of the Florida 

Building Code. 

(b)The Florida Building Commission shall adopt within the Florida Building Code criteria and procedures 

for alternative means of compLiance with the code or local amendments thereto, for enforcement by local 

governments, local enforcement districts, or other entities authorized by law to enforce the Florida Building 

Code. Appeals from the denial of the use of aLternative means shall be heard by the local board, if one exists, 





make filings with the committee of the documents required to be filed by s. 120.54 or s. 120.55(1)(a)4. 

(f)Notwithstanding s. 120.57(1 )(a), hearings which invoLve student discipLinary suspensions or expuLsions 

may be conducted by educational units. 

(g)Sections 120.569 and 120.57 do not apply to any proceeding in which the substantiaL interests of a 

student are determined by a state university or a community college. 

(h)Notwithstanding ss. 120.569 and 120.57, in a hearing involving a student discipLinary suspension or 

expulsion conducted by an educational unit, the 14-day notice of hearing requirement may be waived by the 

agency head or the hearing officer without the consent of parties. 

(i)For purposes of s. 120.68, a district schooL board whose decision is reviewed under the provisions of s. 

1012.33 and whose final action is modified by a superior administrative decision shaLL be a party entitled to 

judicial review of the final action. 

(j)Notwithstanding s. 120.525(2), the agenda for a special meeting of a district schooL board under 

authority of s. 1001 .372(1) shaLL be prepared upon the calling of the meeting, but not Less than 48 hours prior 

to the meeting. 

(k)Students are not persons subject to reguLation for the purposes of petitioning for a variance or waiver 

to rules of educational units under s. 120.542. 

(l)Sections 120.54(3)(b) and 120.541 do not apply to the adoption of rules pursuant to s. 1012.22, s. 

1012.27, s. 1012.335, s. 1012.34, or s. 1012.795. 

(2)LOCAL UNITS OF GOVERNMENT.— 

(a)Local units of government with jurisdiction in only one county or part thereof shall not be required to 

make filings with the committee of the documents required to be filed by s. 120.54. 

(b)Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, units of government with jurisdiction in only one 

county or part thereof need not pubLish required notices in the Florida Administrative Weekly, but shaLl 

publish these notices in the manner required by their enabling acts for notice of rulemaking or notice of 

meeting. Notices reLating to ruLes are not required to include the fuLL text of the ruLe or rule amendment. 

(3)PRISONERS AND PAROLEES.— 

(a)Notwithstanding s. 120.52(13), prisoners, as defined by s. 944.02, shaLl not be considered parties in 

any proceedings other than those under s. 120.54(3)(c) or (7), and may not seek judicial review under s. 

120.68 of any other agency action. Prisoners are not eligible to seek an administrative determination of an 

agency statement under s. 120.56(4). ParoLees shalL not be considered parties for purposes of agency action or 

judicial review when the proceedings reLate to the rescission or revocation of parole. 

(b)Notwithstanding s. 120.54(3)(c), prisoners, as defined by s. 944.02, may be limited by the Department 

of Corrections to an opportunity to present evidence and argument on issues under consideration by 

submission of written statements concerning intended action on any department ruLe. 



(c)Notwithstanding ss. 120.569 and 120.57, in a preLiminary hearing for revocation of parole, no Less than 

7 days' notice of hearing shall be given. 

(4)REGULATION OF PROFESSIONS.—Notwithstanding s. 120.569(2)(g), in a proceeding against a Licensed 

professionaL or in a proceeding for licensure of an applicant for professional licensure which invoLves 

allegations of sexual misconduct: 

(a)The testimony of the victim of the sexuaL misconduct need not be corroborated. 

(b)Specific instances of prior consensual sexual activity between the victim of the sexual misconduct and 

any person other than the offender is inadmissibLe, unless: 

1 .It is first estabLished to the administrative law judge in a proceeding in camera that the victim of the 

sexual misconduct is mistaken as to the identity of the perpetrator of the sexuaL misconduct; or 

2.If consent by the victim of the sexuaL misconduct is at issue and it is first estabLished to the 

administrative law judge in a proceeding in camera that such evidence tends to estabLish a pattern of conduct 

or behavior on the part of such victim which is so similar to the conduct or behavior in the case that it is 

relevant to the issue of consent. 

(c)Reputation evidence relating to the prior sexuaL conduct of a victim of sexuaL misconduct is 

inadmissible. 

(5)HUNTING AND FISHING REGULATION.—Agency action which has the effect of aLtering established 

hunting or fishing seasons, or altering established annual harvest limits for saltwater fishing if the procedure 

for aLtering such harvest limits is set out by rule of the Fish and WiLdlife Conservation Commission, is not a 

rule as defined by this chapter, provided such action is adequateLy noticed in the area affected through 

publishing in a newspaper of general circulation or through notice by broadcasting by eLectronic media. 

(6)RISK IMPACT STATEMENT.—The Department of Environmental Protection shaLL prepare a risk impact 

statement for any rule that is proposed for approval by the EnvironmentaL Regulation Commission and that 

establishes or changes standards or criteria based on impacts to or effects upon human heaLth. The 

Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services shall prepare a risk impact statement for any ruLe that is 

proposed for adoption that estabLishes standards or criteria based on impacts to or effects upon human 

health. 

(a)This subsection does not appLy to rules adopted pursuant to federaLLy delegated or mandated programs 

where such rules are identicaL or substantiaLly identical to the federaL regulations or Laws being adopted or 

implemented by the Department of Environmental Protection or Department of AgricuLture and Consumer 

Services, as applicable. However, the Department of Environmental Protection and the Department of 

Agriculture and Consumer Services shall identify any risk analysis information available to them from the 

Federal Government that has formed the basis of such a rule. 

(b)This subsection does not appLy to emergency ruLes adopted pursuant to this chapter. 



(c)The Department of EnvironmentaL Protection and the Department of AgricuLture and Consumer 

Services shall prepare and pubLish notice of the availability of a clear and concise risk impact statement for all 

applicable rules. The risk impact statement must explain the risk to the public health addressed by the rule 

and shall identify and summarize the source of the scientific information used in evaLuating that risk. 

(d)Nothing in this subsection shaLL be construed to create a new cause of action or basis for chaLlenging a 

rule nor diminish any existing cause of action or basis for challenging a rule. 

History.—s. 42, ch. 96-159; s. 17, ch. 97-176; s. 49, ch. 99-2; s. 65, ch. 99-245; s. 7, ch. 99-379; s. 28, ch. 99-398; s. 4, ch. 

2000-214; s. 897, ch. 2002-387; s. 17, ch. 2008-104; s. 4, ch. 2010-78; s. 9, ch. 2011-225. 



CHAPTER 64B16-25 
ORGANIZATION AND PURPOSE 

64B 16-25.130 Executive Director (Repealed) 
64B16-25.170 Probable Cause Panel 
64B 16-25.340 Meetings and Workshops 

64B16-25.130 Executive Director. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 48.111(2), 456.004, 456.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-8.04, 21S-8.004, 

Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-25.130, 61F10-25.130, 59X-25.130, Amended 10-29-9 7, 11-2 -03, Repealed 3-28-12. 

64B16-25.170 Probable Cause Panel. 
(1) The determination as to whether probable cause exists to believe that a violation of Chapter 456, Part II, 465, 499, or 893, 

F.S., or of the rules promulgated thereunder, has occurred shall be made by the probable cause panel. The panel shall meet as 

necessary. 
(2) The probable cause panel shall be composed of two (2) persons, either current or former board members appointed by the 

chairman of the Board. One appointee must be a current board member. The panel must include a former or current board member 
who is a licensed pharmacist. An appointee may be a former board member. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.073 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-8.08, 21S-8.008, 21S-25.170, 61F10- 

25.1 70, 59X-25.170, Amended 11-24-09. 

64B16-25.340 Meetings and Workshops. 
The following are considered to be official meetings of the Board: 

(1) Board Meetings. 
(2) Examination Committee Meetings. 
(3) Tripartite Continuing Education Committee Meeting. 
(4) Meetings of committees set out in the official minutes of the Board where statutory authority is given by the practice act. 

(5) Meetings of a Board member with Department staff or contractors of the Department at the Department's or Board's 
request. Any participation or meeting of members noticed or unnoticed will be on file in the Board office. 

(6) Where a Board member has been requested by the State Surgeon General to participate in a meeting. 
(7) Probable Cause Panel meetings. 
(8) All activity of Board members, if authorized by the Board, when grading, proctoring or reviewing examinations given by the 

Department. 
(9) All participation in Board authorized meetings with professional associations of which the Board is a member or invitee. 

This would include all meetings of the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy of which the Board is a member as well as 

Board authorized participation in meetings of national or professional associations or organizations involved in educating, regulating 
and reviewing the profession over which the Board has statutory authority. 

(10) Any and all other activities which are Board approved and which are necessary for Board members to attend in order to 

further protect the public health, safety and welfare, through the regulation of which the Board has statutory authority. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.011(4) FS. Law Implemented 456.011(4) FS. History—New 9-30-81, Amended 11-13-81, 12-31-81, Formerly 21S-1 0.05, 

21S-10.005, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-25.340, 61F10-25.340, 59X-25.340, Amended 2-18-08. 



CHAPTER 64B16-26 
PHARMACISTS LICENSURE 

64B16-26.l00 Pharmacists Newly Licensed (Repealed) 
64B16-26.101 Fees and License Renewal Application 
64B16-26.1001 Examination and Application Fees 
64B16-26.1002 Initial License Fees 
64B16-26.1003 Active License Renewal Fees 
64B16-26.1004 Inactive License Election; Renewal; Fees 
64B16-26.1005 Retired License Election; Renewal; Fees. 
64B 16-26.1012 Approved Continuing Education Provider Renewal Fee 
64B16-26.102 Inactive License Renewal (Repealed) 
64B16-26.1021 Delinquent License Reversion; Reinstatement; Fees 
64B16-26.1022 Permit Fees 
64B 16-26.103 Continuing Education Credits; Renewal 
64B 16-26.1031 Influenza Immunization Certification Program 
64B 16-26.1032 Influenza Immunization Administration Certification Application 
64B16-26.104 Exemptions for Members of the Armed Forces; Spouses 
64B 16-26.105 Consultant Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee (Repealed) 
64B16-26.106 Nuclear Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee (Repealed) 
64B16-26.107 ffiactive Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.200 Examination Requirements 
64B 16-26.201 Reexamination (Repealed) 
64B16-26.202 Examination Review Procedure (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.203 Licensure by Examination; Application 
64B 16-26.2031 Licensure by Examination; Foreign Pharmacy Graduates 
64B 16-26.2032 Pharmacy Intern Registration Internship Requirements (U.S. Pharmacy Students/Graduates) 
64B 16-26.2033 Pharmacy Intern Registration and Internship Requirements (Foreign Pharmacy Graduates) 
64B16-26.2035 Examination Fees (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.204 Licensure by Endorsement 
64B16-26.205 Requirements for Foreign Pharmacy Graduates to Be Admitted to the Pharmacist Licensure Examination (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.300 Consultant Pharmacist Licensure 
64B16-26.301 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Training Program 
64B 16-26.302 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Licensure Renewal Continuing Education 
64B16-26.303 Nuclear Pharmacist Licensure 
64B 16-26.304 Subject Matter for Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal Continuing Education Programs 
64B 16-26.320 Subject Matter for Continuing Education to Order and Evaluate Laboratory Tests 
64B 16-26.350 Requirements for Pharmacy Technician Registration 
64B 16-26.351 Standards for Approval of Registered Pharmacy Technician Training Programs 
64B16-26.355 Subject Matter for Registered Pharmacy Technician Continuing Education 
64B 16-26.400 Pharmacy Interns; Registration; Employment 
64B16-26.401 Requirements for an ffiternship Program Sufficient to QualiQi an Applicant for Licensure by Examination (Repealed) 
64B 16-26.600 Tripartite Continuing Education Committee 
64B 16-26.601 Standards for Approval of Courses and Providers 
64B 16-26.6012 Guidelines for Board Ordered Disciplinary Continuing Education Courses 
64B 16-26.603 Continuing Education Records Requirements 
64B16-26.602 Recommendation by the Tripartite Continuing Education Committee (Repealed) 
64B16-26.606 Number of Required Hours (Repealed) 

64B16-26.100 Pharmacists Newly Licensed. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.013(2), 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(2), 465.008 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.04, Amended]- 
7-87, 12-29-88, 10-16-90, Formerly 21S-6.004, Amended 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.100, 61F10-26.100, 59X-26.100, Amended 4-1 7-01, Repealed 
3-10-05. 



64B16-26.1O1 Fees and License Renewal Application. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 456.064, 465.008 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.05, Amended 1-7-87, 4-21-87, 12- 

29-88, Formerly 21S-6.005, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.101, 61F10-26.101, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.101, Amended 12-31-97, 

12-3 -00, 3-18-01, 10-15-01, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.1001 Examination and Application Fees. 
(1) The non-refundable examination fee for licensure by examination shall be $100, payable to the Board. Examination fees for 

the National Practice Examination and jurisprudence examination are payable to the examination vendor. 
(2) The non-refundable application fee licensure by endorsement shall be S 100, payable to the Board. 
(3) The non-refundable application fee for a continuing education provider seeking approved provider status shall be $150, 

payable to the Board. 
(4) The non-refundable application fee for the Influenza Immunization Certification shall be $55, payable to the Board. 
(5) The non-refundable application fee for registered pharmacy technicians shall be $50, payable to the Board. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.009 FS. Law Implemented 456.025(7), 465.007, 465.0075, 465.009, 465.014 FS. History—New 1-11-05, 

Amended 10-30-0 7, 11-15-09, 7-7-10. 

64B16-26.1002 Initial License Fees. 
(1) The initial license fee for a pharmacist license shall be $190 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 456.065(3), 

F.S. 
(2) The initial license fee for a consultant pharmacist license shall be $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 

456.065(3), F.S. 

(3) The initial license fee for a nuclear pharmacist license shall be $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 
456.065(3), F.S. 

(4) The initial registration fee for a registered pharmacy technician shall be $50 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to 
Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(2), 456.065(3), 465.0125, 465.0126, 465.014 FS. History—New 

1-11-05, Amended 11-24-09. 

64B16-26.1003 Active License Renewal Fees. 
(1) The biennial license renewal fee for an active pharmacist license shall be $200 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to 

Section 456.065(3), F.S. 
(2) The biennial license renewal fee for a consultant pharmacist active license shall be $100 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

(3) The biennial license renewal fee for a nuclear pharmacist active license shall be $100 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

(4) The biennial registration renewal fee for a registered pharmacy technician shall be $50 plus $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 465.005, 465.008, 465.0125, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 456.065 (3), 465.008, 465.0125, 465.0126, 

465.014 FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 2-24-1 0, 2-1-12. 

64B16-26.1004 Inactive License Election; Renewal; Fees. 
(1) A pharmacist licensee may elect: 
(a) At the time of license renewal to place the license on inactive status by submitting a written request with the board for 

inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $245 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee pursuant to Section 
456.065(3), F.S. 

(b) At the time of license renewal, if the license is inactive, to continue the license on inactive status by submitting a written 
request with the board for inactive status and submitting the inactive status renewal fee of $245 plus a $5 unlicensed activity fee 

pursuant to Section 456.065(3), F.S. 





status renewal fee and the active status renewal fee, if any exists. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 465.005, 465.012, 465.0125, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 456.065 (3), 465.012, 465.0125, 465.0126 

FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 10-30-0 7, 10-27-09. 

64B16-26.1005 Retired License Election; Renewal; Fees. 
(1) A licensee may elect to place his or her license on retired status. 

(a) At the time of license renewal, to place the license on retired status, the licensee must submit a written request with the board 
for retired status and submit the retired status fee of $50.00 pursuant to Section 456.036(4)(b), F.S., and the current unlicensed 
activity fee. 

(b) At a time other than license renewal, to place the license on retired status, the licensee must submit a written request to the 

Board for the retired status plus submit the retired status fee of $50.00 pursuant to Section 456.036(4)(b), F.S., plus a change of 
status fee of $25.00, plus the current unlicensed activity fee. 

(c) Before the license of a retired status licensee is reactivated, the licensee must meet the continuing education requirements in 
Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C., and pay any renewal fees imposed on an active status licensee for all biennial licensure periods, plus the 
current unlicensed activity fee during which the licensee was on retired status. 

(2) Any pharmacist applying for an active status license who has been on retired status for 5 years or more, or if licensed 
elsewhere, has not been active during the past 5 years, shall as a condition of licensure, demonstrate that he or she is able to practice 
with the care and skill sufficient to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public by: 

(a) If inactive for less than 5 years, the licensee must pass a jurisprudence examination; 
(b) If inactive for 5 or more years, in addition to paragraph (a), the licensee must pass the NAPLEX. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036(15) FS. Law Implemented 456.013, 456. 036(4,)(b) FS. History—New 11-29-06, Amended 12-22-09. 

64B16-26.1012 Approved Continuing Education Provider Renewal Fee. 
The biennial fee to renew as an approved continuing education provider shall be $150. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.013(9), 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(9), 465.009, 465.012 FS. History—New 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.1021 Delinquent License Reversion; Reinstatement; Fees. 
(1) An active or inactive license that is not renewed by midnight of the expiration date of the license shall automatically revert 

to delinquent status. 
(2) A pharmacist may request that a delinquent license be reinstated to active or inactive status, provided the licensee meets the 

continuing education requirements of Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the license was on inactive status, and by 
submitting a reactivation fee of $100 plus the current fee for an active status or inactive status license set forth in Rule 64B 16- 

26.1003 or 64B16-26.1004, F.A.C. 
(3) A consultant pharmacist may request that a delinquent consultant pharmacist license be reinstated to an active or inactive 

status by submitting a delinquent fee of $100 plus the current fee for an active or inactive status consultant pharmacist license set 

forth in Rule 64Bl6-26.l003 or 64Bl6-26.1004, F.A.C. 
(4) A nuclear pharmacist may request that a delinquent nuclear pharmacist license be reinstated to an active or inactive license 

status by submitting a delinquent fee of $100 plus the current fee for an active or inactive nuclear pharmacist license set forth in 

Rule 64B16-26.1003 or 64B16-26.1004, F.A.C. 
(5) A registered pharmacy technician may request that a delinquent registered pharmacy technician registration be reinstated to 

an active or inactive status provided the registered pharmacy technician meets the continuing education requirements of Rule 
64Bl6-26.103, F.A.C., for each biennium the registration was on inactive status, and by submitting a reactivation fee of $25 plus the 

current fee for an active or inactive status registered pharmacy technician registration set forth in Rule 64B 16-26.1003 or 64B 16- 

26.1004, F.A.C. 
(6) A license in delinquent status that is not renewed prior to midnight of the expiration date of the current licensure cycle shall 

be rendered null without any further action by the Department. Any subsequent license shall be the result of applying for and 
meeting all requirements imposed on an applicant for new licensure. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 465.005, 465.012 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 465.012 FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 10-27-09. 



64B16-26.102 Inactive License Renewal. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.008, 465.012 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.06, Amended 1-7-87, 12-29-88, 

Formerly 21S-6.006, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.102, 61F10-26.102, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.102, Amended 3-18- 

01, Repealed 3-1 0-05. 

64B16-26.1022 Permit Fees. 
(1) The initial permit fee for a pharmacy, as provided by Section 465.022(8)(a), F.S., shall be $250. 
(2) The biennial permit renewal fee for a pharmacy, as provided by Section 465.022(8)(b), F.S., shall be $250. 
(3) The change of location fee for a pharmacy, as provided by Section 465.022(8)(d), F.S., shall be $100. 
(4) The delinquent fee for a pharmacy permit, as provided by Section 465 .022(8)(c), F.S., shall be $100. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022(8) FS. Law Implemented 465.022(8) FS. History—New 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.103 Continuing Education Credits; Renewal. 
(1) Prior to biennal renewal of pharmacist licensure, a licensee shall complete no less than 30 hours of approved courses of 

continued professional pharmaceutical education within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the license. The 
following conditions shall apply. 

(a) Upon a licensee's first renewal of licensure, the licensee must document the completion of one (1) hour of board approved 
continuing education which includes the topics of Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome; 
the modes of transmission, including transmission from a healthcare worker to a patient and the patient to the healthcare worker; 
infection control procedures, including universal precautions; epidemiology of the disease; related infections including tuberculosis 
(TB); clinical management; prevention; and current Florida law on AIDS and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, and 
treatment of patients. In order to meet this requirement, licensees must demonstrate that the course includes information on the State 
of Florida law on HIV/AIDS and its impact on testing, reporting, the offering of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner 
notification issues pursuant to Sections 381.004 and 384.25, F.S. Any HIV/AIDS continuing education course taken during the 
second or subsequent renewal of licensure may be applied to satisfy the general continuing education hours requirement. 

(b) The initial renewal of a pharmacist license will not require completion of courses of continued professional pharmaceutical 
education hours if the license was issued less than 12 months prior to the expiration date of the license. If the initial renewal occurs 
12 months or more after the initial licensure, then 15 hours of continued professional pharmaceutical education hours shall be 
completed prior to the renewal of the license but no earlier than the date of initial licensure 

(c) Prior to renewal a licensee must complete, within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the license, a two-hour 
continuing education course approved in advance by the Board on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause analysis, 
error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. Hours obtained pursuant to this section may be applied by the licensee to the 

requirements of subsection (1). 

(d) Five hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk management may be obtained by attending one fttll day or 
eight (8) hours of a board meeting at which disciplinary hearings are conducted by the Board of Pharmacy in compliance with the 
following: 

1. The licensee must sign in with the Executive Director or designee of the Board before the meeting day begins; 
2. The licensee must remain in continuous attendance; 
3. The licensee cannot receive continuing education credit for attendance at a board meeting if required to appear before the 

board; and 
4. The maximum continuing education hours allowable per biennium under this paragraph shall be ten (10). 

(e) A member of the Board of Pharmacy may obtain five (5) hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk 
management for attendance at one Board meeting at which disciplinary hearings are conducted. The maximum continuing education 
hours allowable per biennium under this paragraph shall be ten (10). 

(f) Up to five hours per biennium of continuing education credit may be fttlfilled by the performance of volunteer services to the 
indigent as provided in Section ), F.S., or to underserved populations, or in areas of critical need within the state where the 
licensee practices. In order to receive credit, the licensee must make application to and receive approval in advance from the Board. 
Application shall be made on form DH-MQA 1170 (Rev. 02/09), Individual Request for Continuing Education for Volunteers, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference. The form can be obtained from the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 



#C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254. One hour credit shall be given for each two hours volunteered in the 24 months prior to the 
expiration date of the license. In the application for approval, the licensee shall disclose the type, nature and extent of services to be 
rendered, the facility where the services will be rendered, the number of patients expected to be serviced, and a statement indicating 
that the patients to be served are indigent. If the licensee intends to provide services in underserved or critical need areas, the 

application shall provide a brief explanation as to those facts. A licensee who is completing community service as a condition of 
discipline imposed by the board cannot use such service to complete continuing education requirements. 

(g) Continuing education credit shall be granted for completion of post professional degree programs provided by accredited 
colleges or schools of pharmacy. Credit shall be awarded at the rate of 5 hours of continuing education credit per semester hour 
completed within the 24 months prior to the expiration date of the license. 

(h) Continuing education may consist of post-graduate studies, institutes, seminars, lectures, conferences, workshops, 
correspondence courses, or other educational opportunities which advance the practice of the profession of pharmacy if approved by 
the Board. A course shall be approved prior to completion and will be evaluated by the Tripartite Committee using the standards 
found in Rule 64B 16-26.601, F.A.C. Individuals must submit requests for course approval at least 45 days in advance of the 
program or course by completing the approved application form DOH/MQA/PH 112, (Rev. 6/12), entitled Individual Requests for 
Continuing Education Credit, which is incorporated by reference, and which can be obtained from 
http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-O 1636 and the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or from the website located at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. Individuals seeking 
course approval must attach to the application a detailed program outline, overview or syllabus which describes the educational 
content, objectives and faculty qualifications. 

(i) Any volunteer expert witness who is providing expert witness opinions for cases being reviewed by the Department of 
Health pursuant to Chapter 465, F.S., shall receive five (5) hours of credit in the area of risk management for each case reviewed in 

the 24 months prior to the expiration date of the license, up to a maximum often (10) hours per biennium. 
(j) The presenter of a live seminar, a live video teleconference or through an interactive computer-based application shall 

receive 1 credit for each course credit hour presented, however presenter will not receive additional credit for multiple same course 
presentations. 

(k) All programs approved by the ACPE for continuing education for pharmacists are deemed approved by the Board for 
general continuing education hours for pharmacists. Any course necessary to meet the continuing education requirement for 
HIV/AIDS, medication errors, or consultant pharmacist license renewal shall be Board approved. 

(1) General continuing education earned by a non-resident pharmacist in another state that is not ACPE approved, but is 

approved by the board of pharmacy in the state of residence can be applied to meet the requirements of license renewal in subsection 
(1) above. 

(m) At least ten (10) of the required 30 hours must be obtained either at a live seminar, a live video teleconference, or through 
an interactive computer-based application. 

(2) Prior to renewal a consultant pharmacist shall complete no less than 24 hours of Board approved continuing education in the 
course work specified in Rule 64B16-26.302, F.A.C., within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the consultant 
license. The hours earned to satisfy this requirement cannot be used to apply toward the 30 hours required in subsection (1) above. 
However, if consultant recertification hours are earned and not used to meet the requirements of this paragraph, they may be applied 
by the licensee to the 30 hours required in subsection (1). 

(a) If the initial renewal of a consultant pharmacist license occurs less than 12 months after the initial licensure, then completion 
of consultant courses of continuing education hours will not be required. 

(b) If the initial renewal of a consultant pharmacist license occurs 12 months or more after the initial licensure, then 12 hours of 
consultant continuing education hours must be completed prior to the renewal date of the license but no earlier than the date of 
initial licensure. 

(3) Prior to renewal a nuclear pharmacist shall complete no less than 24 hours of Board approved continuing education in the 
course work specified in Rule 64B16-26.304, F.A.C., within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the nuclear 
pharmacist license. The hours earned to satisfy this requirement cannot be used to apply toward the 30 hours required in subsection 
(1) above. However, if nuclear pharmacist license renewal hours are earned and not used to meet the requirements of this paragraph, 
they may be applied by the licensee to the 30 hours required in subsection (1). 

(a) If the initial renewal of a nuclear pharmacist license occurs less than 12 months after the initial licensure, then completion of 



courses of nuclear pharmacy continuing education hours will not be required. 
(b) If the initial renewal of a nuclear pharmacist license occurs 12 months or more after the initial licensure, then 12 hours of 

nuclear pharmacy continuing education hours must be completed prior to the renewal date of the license but no earlier than the date 
of initial licensure. 

(c) All programs approved by the ACPE for continuing education for nuclear pharmacists are deemed approved by the Board 
for general continuing education hours for nuclear pharmacists. 

(4) Prior to renewal a registered phamacy technician shall complete no less than twenty (20) hours of Board approved 
continuing education in the course work specified in Rule 64B16-26.355, F.A.C., within the 24 month period prior to the expiration 
date of the phamacy technician registration. 

(a) Upon a pharmacy technician's first renewal, registrtant must document the completion of one (1) hour of board approved 
continuing education which includes the topics of Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome; 
the modes of transmission, including transmission from a healthcare worker to a patient and the patient to the healthcare worker; 
infection control procedures, including universal precautions; epidemiology of the disease; related infections including tuberculosis 
(TB); clinical management; prevention; and current Florida law on AIDS and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, and 
treatment of patients. In order to meet this requirement, licensees must demonstrate that the course includes information on the State 
of Florida law on HIV/AIDS and its impact on testing, reporting, the offering of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner 
notification issues pursuant to Sections 381.004 and 384.25, F.S. Any HIV/AIDS continuing education course taken during the 
second or subsequent renewal of registration may be applied to satisfy the general continuing education hours requirement. 

(b) If the initial renewal of a pharmacy technician registration occurs less than 12 months after the initial licensure, then 
completion of courses of a pharmacy technician registration education hours will not be required. 

(c) If the initial renewal of a pharmacy techician registration occurs 12 months or more afier the initial licensure, then 12 hours 
of registered phamacy technician continuing education hours must be completed prior to the renewal date of the license but no 

earlier than the date of initial lic ensure. 
(d) All programs approved by the ACPE for continuing education for pharmacy technicians are deemed approved by the Board 

for general continuing education hours for registered pharmacy technicians. Any course necessary to meet the continuing education 
requirement for HIV/AIDS license renewal shall be Board approved. 

(e) Prior to renewal a licensee must complete, within the 24 month period prior to the expiration date of the license, a two-hour 
continuing education course approved in advance by the Board on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause analysis, 
error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. Hours obtained pursuant to this section may be applied by the licensee to the 

requirements of subsection (1). 

(f) Five hours of continuing education in the subject area of risk management may be obtained by attending one fhll day or eight 
(8) hours of a board meeting at which disciplinary hearings are conducted by the Board of Pharmacy in compliance with the 

following: 
1. The registratrant must sign in with the Executive Director or designee of the Board before the meeting day begins; 
2. The registrant must remain in continuous attendance; 
3. The registrant cannot receive continuing education credit for attendance at a board meeting if required to appear before the 

board; and 
4. The maximum continuing education hours allowable per biennium under this paragraph shall be ten (10). 

(g) At least four (4) of the required 20 hours must be obtained either at a live seminar, a live video teleconference, or through an 

interactive computer-based application. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.033, 465.009 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(7), (9), 456.033, 465.009 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Formerly 21S-6.07, 

Amended 1-7-87, Formerly 21S-6.007, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.103, 61F10-26.103, Amended 7-1-97, Formerly 59X-26.103, 

Amended 7-11-00, 10-15-0 1, 1-2-02, 1-12-03, 4-12-05, 5-26-09, 5-27-10, 9-20-12. 

64B16-26.1031 Influenza Immunization Certification Program. 
(1) All applications for immunization certification programs shall be made on board approved form DH-MQA 1234, 

"Immunization Certification Program Application", effective 04/10, which is hereby incorporated by reference. To obtain an 
application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254 or (850) 488-0595, 
or download the application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 



(2) The Board shall approve for initial certification of pharmacist administration of influenza immunizations, programs of study 
not less than 20 hours that include coursework covering all of the following; 

(a) Mechanisms of action for vaccines, contraindications, drug interactions, and monitoring after vaccine administration; 
(b) Immunization Schedules; 

(c) Immunization screening questions, provision of risk/benefit information, informed consent, recordkeeping, and electronic reporting 

into the statewide immunization registry through enrollment application DH Form 1997 (effective 10/07) herein incorporated by reference 
and may be obtained from the Board office by writing to the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 

32399-3254 or by telephoning 1(877)888-7468; 

(d) Vaccine storage and handling; 

(e) Bio-Hazardous waste disposal and sterile techniques; 

(f) Entering, negotiating and performing pursuant to physician oversight protocols; 

(g) Community immunization resources and programs; 

(h) Identifying, managing and responding to adverse incidents including but not limited to potential allergic reactions associated with 

vaccine administration; 

(i) Procedures and policies for reporting adverse events to the Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting System (VAERS); 
(j) Reimbursement procedures and vaccine coverage by federal, state and local governmental jurisdictions and private third party payors; 
(k) Administration techniques; 
(1) The current influenza immunization guidelines and recommendations of the United States Department of Health Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention published in the Morbidity Weekly Report (MMWR) December 1, 2006, Vol. 55 No. RR-15 and updated MMWR 
July 13, 2007, Vol. 56, No. RR-6; 

(m) Review of Section 465.189, F.S.; and 

(n) Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) training. 

Successfttl completion of the certification program must include a successful demonstration of competency in the administration technique 

and a cognitive examination. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.1 89 FS. History—New 3-20-08, Amended 8-30-JO. 

64B16-26.1032 Influenza Immunization Administration Certification Application. 
All applications for immunization certification shall be made on board approved form DH-MQA 1125, "Immunization 
Administration Certification Application," effective February 2010, which is hereby incorporated by reference. To obtain an 
application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595, 
or download the application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be 
accompanied with a non-reftindable application fee as set forth in Rule 64B16-26.100l, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.189 FS. History—New 9-21-JO. 

64B16-26.104 Exemptions for Members of the Armed Forces; Spouses. 
(1) Any pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician on active duty with the Armed Forces of the United States who at the 

time of becoming a member of the Armed Forces of the United States was in good standing with the Board and was entitled to 

practice the profession of pharmacy or registered as a pharmacy technician in Florida shall be exempt from all license renewal 
provisions so long as the licensee is on active duty with the Armed Forces and for a period of six months after discharge so long as 

the licensee is not engaged in the practice of pharmacy in the private sector for profit. 
(2) A pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician who is a spouse of a member of the Armed Forces of the United States and 

who was caused to be absent from the State of Florida because of the spouse's duties with the Armed Forces shall be exempt from 
all license renewal provisions. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.024 FS. History—New 3-19-79, Amended 4-30-85, Formerly 2JS-6. 09, 21S-6. 009, 

Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 2JS-26.104, 6JFJO-26.J04, 59X-26.104, Amended 1-J1-05, J0-27-09. 

64B16-26.105 Consultant Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee. 



Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.008, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 465.0125 FS. History—New 10-26-83, Amended 2-21-84, 
Formerly 21S-6.10, 21S-6.010, 21S-26.105, 61F10-26.105, Amended 3-28-95, Formerly 59X-26.105, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.106 Nuclear Pharmacists Initial Registration Fee and Renewal Fee 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 456.036, 465.0126 FS. History—New 12-29-88, Formerly 21S-6.011, 21S-26.106, 

61F10-26.106, Amended 6-26-95, 3-11-96, Formerly 59X-26.106, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.107 Inactive Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.008, 465.012, 465.022(8) FS. Law Implemented 465.008, 465.012, 465.022(8) FS. History—New 6-26-95, 

Formerly 59X-26.107, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.200 Examination Requirements. 
The examination provided in Section 465.007, F.S., shall be as follows: 

(1) Part A North American Pharmacist Licensure Examination (NAPLEX). 
(2) Part B Multistate Pharmacy Jurisprudence Examination Florida Version. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.01 7, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.017 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 2-8-81, 6-22-82, 8-16-84, 4-30-85, 

Formerly 21S-12.01, Amended 5-6-86, Formerly 21S-12.001, Amended 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.200, 61F10-26.200, Amended 7-1-97, Formerly 

59X-26.200, Amended 3-22-99, 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.201 Reexamination. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.017, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.017 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 2-8-81, 11-27-84, 4-30-85, Formerly 
21S-12.02, Amended 5-6-86, Formerly 21S-12.002, 21S-26.201, 61F10-26.201, 59X-26.201, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.202 Examination Review Procedure. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.017(2) FS. Law Implemented 456.01 7(2) FS. History—New 10-1 7-79, Amended 12-27-82, Formerly 21S-12. 03, Amended 
12-24-89, Formerly 21S-12.003, 21S-26.202, 61F10-26.202, 59X-26.202, Repealed 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.203 Licensure by Examination; Application. 
Applicants who are at least 18 years of age and a recipient of a degree from a school or college of pharmacy accredited by an 
accrediting agency recognized and approved by the United States Office of Education may apply to take the licensure examination. 

(1) All applications for lic ensure by examination must be made on board approved form DOH/MQA/l 01, Pharmacist 
Examination Application for U.S. and Puerto Rico Graduates and Instructions, (Rev 9/09), which is hereby incorporated by 
reference, and which can be obtained from the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399- 
3254, or (850)488-0595 to request an application or download the application from the board's website at 

http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be accompanied with a non-refundable examination fee and an 
initial license fee as set forth in Rules 64Bl6-26.lOOl and 64Bl6-26.1002, F.A.C. 

(2) The applicant must submit proof of having met the following requirements: 
(a) Completion of an internship program provided by either an accredited school or college of pharmacy or a state board of 

pharmacy or jointly by both provided that the program meets requirements of Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 
(b) Completion of a board approved course not less than 2 hours on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause 

analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. For those applicants who apply within one year following receipt of their 
pharmacy degree, completed academic course work on medication errors will be accepted by the Board as an educational course 
under this section, provided such course work is no less than 2 contact hours and that it covers the study of root-cause analysis, error 
reduction and prevention, and patient safety, as evidenced by a letter attesting to subject matter covered from the Dean of the 
University. 

(3) An applicant must reapply if all requirements for licensure are not met within one year of the receipt of the application. 
(4) Passing examination scores may be used upon reapplication only if the examination was completed within 3 years of the 

reapplication. 



Rulemaking Authority 456.033, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(1), (7), 456.025(3), 456.033, 465.007, 465.022 FS. History—New 10-17-79, 

Formerly 21S-12.04, 21S-12.004, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.203, 61F10-26.203, Amended 7-1-97, Formerly 59X-26.203, 

Amended 8-17-99, 10-15-01, 1-2-02, 1-12-03, 1-11-05, 2-18-08, 5-26-09, 5-11-10. 

64B16-26.2031 Licensure by Examination; Foreign Pharmacy Graduates. 
In order for a foreign pharmacy graduate to be admitted to the professional licensure examination, the applicant must be a graduate 
of a four year undergraduate pharmacy program at a school or college outside the United States and have completed an internship 
program approved by the Board. 

(1) All applications for licensure by examination must be made on form DH-MQA 103 (Rev. 09/09), Pharmacist Examination 
Application For Foreign Graduates and Instructions, which is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy, 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the 

application from the Board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be accompanied with a non- 
refundable examination fee and an initial license fee set forth in Rules 64B16-26.1001 and 64B16-26.1002, F.A.C. 

(a) For applications received at the Board of Pharmacy on or before June 30, 2009, the applicant must: 
1. Successfully pass the foreign pharmacy graduate equivalency examination which is given by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 

Equivalency Commission with a minimum score of 75%. 

2. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL), which is 

administered by the Educational Testing Service, Inc., with a score of at least 500 for the pencil and paper test or 173 for the 
computer version and by passing the Test of Spoken English (TSE) with a score of 45 on the recalibrated TSE; or 

3. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language Internet-based test 
(TOEFL ibt) with scores of: Listening 18; Reading —21; Speaking —26; and Writing —24. 

(b) For applications received at the Board of Pharmacy on or after July 1, 2009, the applicant must: 
1. Successfully pass the foreign pharmacy graduate equivalency examination which is given by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 

Equivalency Commission with a minimum score of 75%; 
2. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL), which is 

administered by the Educational Testing Service, Inc., with a score of at least 550 for the pencil and paper test or 213 for the 
computer version and by passing the Test of Spoken English (TSE) with a score of 50 on the recalibrated TSE; or 

3. Demonstrate proficiency in the use of English by passing the Test of English as a Foreign Language Internet-based test 
(TOEFL ibt) with scores of: Listening 18; Reading —21; Speaking —26; and Writing —24. 

(2) Complete 2080 hours of supervised work activity, of which a minimum of 500 hours must be completed within the State of 
Florida. Such experience must be equivalent to that required in the internship program as set forth in Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 
The work experience program including both the preceptor and the permittee must be approved by the Board of Pharmacy. The 
work experience shall be documented on form DH-MQA 1153 (Rev. 0 1/10), Foreign Graduate Intern Work Activity Manual, which 
is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 
32399-3254 or (850)488-0595 to request a manual or download the manual from the Board's website at 
http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. Further, no program of supervised work activity shall be approved for any applicant until 
said applicant has obtained the specified passing scores on the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination. 

(3) Completion of a Board approved course not less than 2 hours on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause 
analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. For applicants who apply within one year following receipt of their 
pharmacy degree, completed academic course work on medication errors will be accepted by the Board as an educational course 
under this section, provided such course work is no less than 2 contact hours and that it covers the study of root-cause analysis, error 
reduction and prevention, and patient safety as evidence by a letter attesting to subject matter covered from the Dean of the 

University. 

RulemakingAuthorily 465.005, 465.OO7FS. Law Implemented 465.OO7FS. History—New 1-11-05, Amended 8-8-0 7, 6-10-09, 5-2 7-1 0. 

64B16-26.2032 Pharmacy Intern Registration Internship Requirements (U.S. Pharmacy Students/Graduates). 
A U.S. pharmacy student or graduate is required to be registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed 
as an intern in a pharmacy in Florida. 



(1) All applications for registration must be made on form DH-MQA 104, Pharmacy Intern Application for U.S. Pharmacy 
Students/Graduates and Instructions, (Rev. 09/09), which is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 
Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the 
application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 

(2) An applicant for pharmacy intern registration must submit proof of: 

(a) Enrollment in an intern program at a college or school of pharmacy accredited by the Accreditation Council of 
Pharmaceutical Education (ACPE); or 

(b) Graduation from a college or school of pharmacy accredited by the ACPE. 
(3) Upon the receipt of proof satisfactory to the Board that the intern applicant meets the requirement of either paragraph (2)(a) 

or (2)(b), unless there exists good cause for the Board's refusal to certify an applicant as set forth in Section 465 .013, F.S., the Board 
shall certify the applicant to the Department for registration as an intern. 

(4) No intern shall perform any acts relating to the filing, compounding, or dispensing of medicinal drugs unless it is done under 
the direct and immediate personal supervision of a person actively licensed to practice pharmacy in this state. 

(5) All internship experience for the purpose of qualifying for the examination pursuant to Section 465.007(1)(c), F.S., shall be 
obtained in a community pharmacy, institutional pharmacy or any Florida Board of Pharmacy approved pharmacy practice, which 
includes significant aspects of the practice of pharmacy as defined in Section 465.003(13), F.S. 

(6) An internship program at college or school of pharmacy accredited by the ACPE shall assure that community or institutional 
pharmacies utilized for the obtaining of internship experience meet the following minimum requirements: 

(a) The pharmacy shall hold a current license or permit issued by the state in which they are operating and shall have available 
all necessary equipment for professional services, necessary reference works, in addition to the official standards and current 
professional journals. 

(b) The pharmacy shall be operated at all times under the supervision of a pharmacist and shall be willing to train persons 
desiring to obtain professional experience. 

(c) The pharmacy shall establish to the program's satisfaction that the pharmacy fills, compounds and dispenses a sufficient 
number, kind and variety of prescriptions during the course of a year so as to afford to an intern a broad experience in the filling, 

compounding and dispensing of prescription drugs. 
(d) The pharmacy shall have a clear record as to observance of federal, state and municipal laws and ordinances covering any 

phase of activity in which it is engaged. 
(7) The program shall assure that all preceptors meet the following requirements: 
(a) The pharmacist shall willingly accept the responsibility for professional guidance and training of the intern and be able to 

devote time to preceptor training sessions and to instruction of the intern. 

(b) The pharmacist shall hold current licensure in the state in which pharmacy is practiced. 
(c) The pharmacist shall be ineligible to serve as a preceptor during any period in which the pharmacist's license to practice 

pharmacy is revoked, suspended, on probation, or subject to payment of an unpaid fine levied by lawfttl Board order, or during any 
period in which the pharmacist's license is the subject of ongoing disciplinary proceedings. 

(d) The pharmacist shall agree to assist the school or college of pharmacy in the achievement of the educational objectives set 
forth and to provide a professional environment for the training of the intern. 

(e) Evidence shall be provided of the pharmacist's desire to continue broadening professional education and of an active 
involvement in a patient-oriented practice. 

(8) In the event a program meets all the requirements set forth in subsection (6) of this rule, except for prior approval by the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy, any applicant submitting it for the purpose of qualifying for licensure by examination must show in 

addition to successfhl completion of the internship: 
(a) Approval of the program by a state board of pharmacy; and 
(b) Sufficient hours to total 2080 hours; or 
(c) Licensure in another state and work performed as a pharmacist for a sufficient number of hours to total 2080 hours when 

combined with the internship hours. 
(9) All internship hours may be obtained prior to the applicant's graduation. 



(10) Proof of completion of an internship program shall consist of a certification that the applicant has completed the program. 
If additional hours are required to total 2080 hours, satisfactory proof of the additional hours shall be constituted by the program's 
certification of completion of the additional hours. 

(11) Hours worked in excess of 50 hours per week prior to the applicant's graduation or in excess of 60 hours per week after an 
applicant's graduation, will not be credited toward meeting the required internship hours. 

(12) The Board approves all internships that are required to obtain the doctor of pharmacy degree from institutions which are 

accredited as provided by Section 465.007(1)(b)1., F.S. Applicants graduating after January 1, 2001 with the doctor of pharmacy 
degree from such institutions shall be deemed to have met the requirements of this section with documentation of graduation. 

(13) The Board may conduct periodic review of programs to assure compliance with these rules. 
(14) Proof of current licensure in another state and work as a pharmacist for up to 2080 hours may substitute for all or part of 

the internship requirement. 
(15) Governmental and private radiopharmacy internship programs shall not apply to the pharmacy internship required under 

subsection (5) of this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented (12), 465.007, 465.0075, 465.013 FS. History—New 4-1-07, Amended 7-7-10, 10-7- 

12. 

64B16-26.2033 Pharmacy Intern Registration and Internship Requirements (Foreign Pharmacy Graduates). 
A foreign pharmacy graduate is required to be registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as an 
intern in a pharmacy in Florida. 

(1) All applicants for intern registration must be made on form DH-MQA 102, "Pharmacy Intern Application for Foreign 
Graduates and Instructions," effective September 2009, which is incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 
Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 or (850) 488-0595 to request a form or download the form from the 
board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 

(2) An applicant for foreign pharmacy graduate intern registration in Florida must submit proof of: 

(a) Eligibility by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Committee to sit for the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate 
Equivalency Examination, or 

(b) A passing score on the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination to be considered a graduate of an accredited 
college or school of pharmacy. 

(3) Upon the receipt of proof satisfactory to the Board that the intern applicant meets the requirements of either paragraph (a) or 
(b) of subsection (1), and submitted a completed application as required in subsection (2) unless there exists good cause for the 
Board's reftisal to certify an applicant as set forth in Section 465.013, F.S., the Board shall certify the applicant to the Department 
for registration as an intern. 

(4) No intern shall perform any acts relating to the filling, compounding, or dispensing of medicinal drugs unless it is done 
under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a person actively licensed to practice pharmacy in this state. 

(5) All internship experience for the purpose of qualifying for the examination pursuant to Section 465.007(1)(c), F.S., shall be 
obtained in a community pharmacy, institutional pharmacy or any Florida Board of Pharmacy approved pharmacy practice, which 
includes significant aspects of the practice of pharmacy as defined in Section 465.003(13), F.S. 

(6) An internship program at an accredited college or school of pharmacy shall assure that community or institutional 
pharmacies utilized for the obtaining of internship experience meet the following minimum requirements: 

(a) The pharmacy shall hold a current license or permit issued by the state in which they are operating and shall have available 
all necessary equipment for professional services, necessary reference works, in addition to the official standards and current 
professional journals. 

(b) The pharmacy shall be operated at all times under the supervision of a pharmacist and shall be willing to train persons 
desiring to obtain professional experience. 

(c) The pharmacy shall establish to the program's satisfaction that the pharmacy fills, compounds and dispenses a sufficient 
number, kind and variety of prescriptions during the course of a year so as to afford to an intern a broad experience in the filling, 
compounding and dispensing of prescription drugs. 

(d) The pharmacy shall have a clear record as to observance of federal, state and municipal laws and ordinances covering any 
phase of activity in which it is engaged. 



(e) No pharmacist may be responsible for the supervision of more than one intern at any one time. 
(7) The program shall assure that all preceptors meet the following requirements: 
(a) The pharmacist shall willingly accept the responsibility for professional guidance and training of the intern and be able to 

devote time to preceptor training sessions and to instruction of the intern. 

(b) The pharmacist shall hold current licensure in the state in which pharmacy is practiced. 
(c) The pharmacist shall be ineligible to serve as a preceptor during any period in which the pharmacist's license to practice 

pharmacy is revoked, suspended, on probation, or subject to payment of an unpaid fine levied by lawfhl Board order, or during any 
period in which the pharmacist's license is the subject of ongoing disciplinary proceedings. 

(d) The pharmacist shall agree to assist the school or college of pharmacy in the achievement of the educational objectives set 
forth and to provide a professional environment for the training of the intern. 

(e) Evidence shall be provided of the pharmacist's desire to continue broadening professional education and of an active 
involvement in a patient-oriented practice. 

(8) In the event a program meets all the requirements set forth in subsection (2) of this rule, except for prior approval by the 
Florida Board of Pharmacy, any applicant submitting it for the purpose of qualifying for licensure by examination must show in 

addition to successfttl completion of the internship: 
(a) Approval of the program by a state board of pharmacy; and 
(b) Sufficient hours to total 1580 hours; or 
(c) Licensure in another state and work performed as a pharmacist for a sufficient number of hours to total 1580 hours when 

combined with the internship hours. 
(9) All internship hours may be obtained prior to the applicant's graduation. 
(10) Proof of completion of an internship program shall consist of a certification that the applicant has completed the program. 

If additional hours are required to total 2080 hours, satisfactory proof of the additional hours shall be constituted by the program's 
certification of completion of the additional hours. 

(11) Hours worked in excess of 50 hours per week prior to the applicant's graduation or in excess of 60 hours per week after an 
applicant's graduation, will not be credited toward meeting the required internship hours. 

(12) The Board approves all internships that are required to obtain the doctor of pharmacy degree from institutions which are 

accredited as provided by Section 465.007(l)(b)1., F.S. Applicants graduating after January 1, 2001 with the doctor of pharmacy 
degree from such institutions shall be deemed to have met the requirements of this section with documentation of graduation. 

(13) The Board may conduct periodic review of programs to assure compliance with these rules. 
(14) Proof of current licensure in another state and work as a pharmacist for up to 1580 hours may substitute for all or part of 

the internship hours requirement. 
(15) Governmental and private radiopharmacy internship programs shall not apply to the pharmacy internship required under 

subsection (1) of this rule. 

(16) All foreign pharmacy graduates must complete 500 hours of supervised work activity within the state of Florida as 

provided by Section 465.007(1)(b)2., F.S. The supervised work activity program experience shall be documented on form DH-MQA 
1153, "Foreign Graduate Registered Intern Work Activity Manual," effective 01/10. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 or (850)488-0595 to request a form or download the form from the 
board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. Further, this 500 hours of work activity program shall not be 
recognized for any applicant until said applicant has obtained the passing score on the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency 
Exam as provided in Section 465.007, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 'S. Law Implemented 1), 465.002, 465.007, 465.0075, 465.013 FS. History—New 5-2 7-10. 

64B16-26.2035 Examination Fees. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.007 FS. History—New 9-19-94, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.2035, Amended 3- 

22-99, 1 0-30-00, Repealed 3-10-05 



64B16-26.204 Licensure by Endorsement. 
An applicant for licensure by endorsement must be at least 18 years of age and a recipient of a degree from a school or college of 
pharmacy accredited by an accrediting agency recognized and approved by the United States Office of Education. 

(1) All applications for licensure by endorsement shall be made on board approved form DOH/MQA100 effective June 2010. 
Pharmacist Licensure by Endorsement Application and Instructions (U.S. and territories), which is hereby incorporated by reference, 
can be obtained from the Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488- 
0595 to request a form or download the form from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application 
must be accompanied with a non-refundable application fee and initial licensure fee as set forth in Rules 64B16-26.l001 and 64B16- 
26.1002, F.A.C. 

(2) The applicant must submit satisfactory proof that one of the following requirements has been met: 

(a) Two (2) years of active practice, as defined in Section 465.0075(l)(c), F.S., within the immediately preceding five (5) years. 
If the applicant meets the requirements of this section, proof of completion of 30 hours of Florida Board of Pharmacy, ACPE, or 

other state board of pharmacy approved continuing education obtained in the two calendar years immediately preceding application, 
must also be submitted. 

(b) Successful completion of an internship meeting the requirements of Section 465.007(l)(c), F.S., within the immediately 
preceding two (2) years. 

(3) Completion of a Board approved course not less than 2 hours on medication errors that covers the study of root-cause 
analysis, error reduction and prevention, and patient safety. For applicants who apply within one year following receipt of their 
pharmacy degree, completed academic course work on medication errors will be accepted by the Board as an educational course 
under this section, provided such course work is no less than 2 contact hours and that it covers the study of root-cause analysis, error 
reduction and prevention, and patient safety as evidenced by a letter attesting to subject matter covered from an official of the 
university where the course was taken. 

(4) Applicants qualifying under the education requirements of Section 465.007(1)(b)2., F.S., (foreign graduates), must complete 
the requirements of Rule 64B16-26.2031, F.A.C., prior to certification for the examination required in subsection (6) of this rule. 

(5) All requirements for licensure by endorsement must be met within one (1) year of the receipt of the application. Applicants 
failing to meet this requirement must reapply. 

(6) Applicants applying under the provisions of Section 465.0075, F.S., must have obtained a passing score on the licensure 
examination as described in subsection 64B16-26.200(1), F.A.C. 

(7) Applicants applying under the provisions of Section 465.0075, F.S., shall cause the National Association of Boards of 
Pharmacy, or other similar organization to issue a Transfer of Pharmaceutical Licensure certificate showing examination date, 
examination results, states of licensure, disciplinary actions, and licensure status. 

(8) Applicants deemed qualified for licensure by endorsement shall be required to complete the Multistate Pharmacy 
Jurisprudence Examination Florida Version. Passing scores on this examination may be used upon reapplication only if the 
examination was completed within three (3) years of the reapplication. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0075 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(1), 465.00 7, 465.0075, 465.022 FS. History—New 11-8 -01, Amended 1-11- 

05, 2-18-08, 5-26-09, 10-10-10. 

64B16-26.205 Requirements for Foreign Pharmacy Graduates to Be Admitted to the Pharmacist Licensure Examination. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.007 FS. Law Implemented 465.007 FS. History—New 4-18-84, Formerly 21S-12.06, Amended 9-1 7-87, 

Formerly 21S-12.006, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, 4-8-93, Formerly 21S-26.205, 61F10-26.205, Amended 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.205, 

Amended 8-17-99, Repealed 3-10-05. 



64B16-26.300 Consultant Pharmacist Licensure. 
(1) No person shall serve as consultant pharmacist as defined in Section 465.003(3), F.S., unless that person holds a license as a 

consultant pharmacist. 
(2) Application for consultant pharmacist licensure shall be made on form DOH-MQA 1109, 02/09, Consultant Pharmacist 

Application and Information, which is hereby incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 
Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the application from the 
board's website at www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application shall be accompanied by a non-refhndable application fee. 

(3) In order to be licensed as a consultant pharmacist, a person must meet the following requirements: 
(a) Hold a license as a pharmacist which is active and in good standing, 
(b) Successfully complete a consultant pharmacist course of no fewer than twelve (12) hours, sponsored by an accredited 

college of pharmacy located within the State of Florida, and approved by the Florida Board of Pharmacy Tripartite Continuing 
Education Committee which is based on the Statement of the Competencies Required in Institutional Pharmacy Practice and subject 
matter set forth in Rule 64B16-26.301, F.A.C. The course shall be instructionally designed to include a cognitive test on which the 
applicant must score a passing grade for certification of successftil completion of the course. 

(c) Successfully complete a period of assessment and evaluation under the supervision of a preceptor within one (1) year of 
completion of the course set forth in paragraph (b) above. This period of assessment and evaluation shall be completed over no more 
than three (3) consecutive months and shall include at least 40 hours of training in the following practice areas, 60% of which shall 
occur on-site at an institution that holds a pharmacy permit. The training shall include: 

Minimum Skills Required Percent of Time Hours 
Minimum of 40 Hours in Maximum of Three Months 
1. Regimen review, documentation and 60% 24 

communication. 
a. Demonstrate ability to carry out process 
and understand documentation functions. 
b. Understand and perform drug regimen 
review. Communicate findings to 

appropriate individuals or groups. 
c. The applicant is responsible for 
learning other skills needed to perform in his/her 
type of facility where he/she is or will be the 
consultant Pharmacist of Record. 
2. Facility review. 20% 8 

Demonstrate areas that should be evaluated, 
documentation, and reporting procedures. 
3. Committee and Reports. 5% 2 

Review quarterly Quality of Care Committee 
minutes and preparation and delivery of pharmacist 
quarterly report. 
4. Policy and Procedures. 5% 2 

Preparation, review, updating Policy 
and Methods. 
5. Principles of formulary management. 5% 2 

Demonstrate ability to manage formulary. 
6. Professional Relationships. 5% 2 

Knowledge and interaction of facility 
administration and professional staff 

(4) In order to act as a preceptor, a person shall: 

(a) Be a consultant pharmacist of record at an institutional pharmacy which is required to have a consultant pharmacist under 



the provisions of Chapter 465, F.S., and these rules. 
(b) Have a minimum of one (1) year of experience as a consultant pharmacist of record. 
(c) Maintain all pharmacist licenses in good standing with the Board. 
(d) Not act as a preceptor to more than two (2) applicants at the same time. 
(5) Upon completion of the requirements set forth above, the applicant's preceptor shall confirm that the applicant's assessment 

and evaluation have met the requirements and that the applicant has successfhlly completed all required assignments under the 
preceptor's guidance and supervision. 

(6) After licensure a consultant pharmacist's license shall be renewed biennially upon payment of the fee set forth in Rule 
64Bl6-26.1003, F.A.C., and upon completing twenty-four (24) hours of board approved continuing education based upon the 

provisions of Rule 64Bl6-26.302, F.A.C. 
(7) The number of hours earned in recertification programs by a consultant pharmacist, if applied to the twenty-four (24) hours 

required for consultant pharmacist license renewal, may not be used toward the thirty (30) hours of continued professional 
pharmaceutical education credits as set forth in Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C. 

(8) An applicant who applies for a consultant pharmacist license after the effective date of this rule shall be required to complete 
the assessment and evaluation required in paragraph (3)(c) prior to being licensed as a consultant pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125 FS. History—New 5-19-72, Revised 4-19-74, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 10-17-79, 4-8-80, 7-29-81, 7-1-83, 4-10-84, 4-30-85, Formerly 21S-1.26, 21S-1.026, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.300, 

61F10-26.300, Amended 9-19-94, 3-28-95, 3-10-96, Formerly 59X-26.300, Amended 5-22-01, 5-5-05, 11-29-06, 3-29-10. 

64B16-26.301 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Training Program. 
(1) Jurisprudence. 
(a) Laws and regulations, state and federal, pertaining to institutional pharmacy and health care facilities. 
(b) Laws and regulations, state and federal, pertaining to the safe and controlled storage of alcohol and other related substances, 

and relating to fire and health-hazard control. 
(2) Policy and Procedures. 
(a) Written procedures for outlining the medication system in effect. 

1. Traditional systems. 
2. Unit-dose systems. 
a. Centralized. 
b. Decentralized. 
c. Automated medication systems. 
3. Routine and emergency use of drugs. 
4. After hours procedure for medication dispensing. 
S. Managing drug shortages. 
(b) Record keeping and reports. 
1. Controlled substance control and record-of-usage. 
2. Alcohol inventory and record-of-usage. 
3. Patient drug use control and records. 
a. Recalls. 
b. Medication use evaluation. 
c. Medication errors. 
4. Drug charges, methods, accountability, and reports. 
5. Statistical reports of usage, volume, etc. 

(3) Administrative Responsibilities. 
(a) Fiscal Control. 
1. Perpetual and traditional inventory systems. 
2. Application of EDP techniques. 
(b) Personnel Management, orientation and training. 
(c) Intra-professional relations pertaining to medication use. 



(d) Inter-professional relations with other members of the institutional health care team. 
1. Pharmacy & Therapeutic Committee. 
a. Rational drug therapy; review of medication use and prescribing. 
b. Formulary development evaluation, appraisal, selection, procurement, storage, distribution, medication safety, criteria for 

use development and safety. 
c. Automatic stop orders on potent and dangerous drugs. 
d. Controls on storage and use of investigational drugs. 
2. In-service education of nurses and other health-related personnel. 
3. Infectious Disease Committee. 
(4) Professional Responsibilities. 
(a) Drug information retrieval and methods of dispersal. 
(b) Development of pharmacy practice. 
(c) Development of an IV Admixture service. 
(d) Procedures to enhance medication safety. 
1. Availability of equipment, technique, etc., to prepare special dosage forms for pediatric and geriatric patients. 
2. Preparation of sterile dosage forms. 
3. Proper writing, transcribing and initiating and/or transferring patient medication orders; development of physician's chart 

order copy system. 
4. Safety of patient self-medication and control of drugs at bedside. 
5. Reporting and trending adverse drug reactions. 
6. Screening for potential drug interactions. 
7. Development and maintenance of up-to-date emergency kits. 
(e) Maintain drug quality and safe storage. 
1. Procedures for eliminating out-dated drugs. 
2. Requirements for safe and appropriate storage conditions. 
(f) Maintain drug identity. 
1. Procedures for labeling, transferring of bulk medications, etc. 

2. Manufacturing and packaging procedures. 
3. Pre-packaging control and supervision. 
(5) The Institutional Environment. 
(a) The institution's pharmacy ffinction and purpose. 
(b) Interdepartmental relationships important to the institutional pharmacy. 
(c) Understanding of scope of service and in-patient care mission of the institution. 
(d) Special training with respect to the operation of nursing homes and Extended Care Facilities (ECF)/pharmacy relationship 

and special procurement procedures. 
(6) Nuclear pharmacy. 
(a) Procurement. 
(b) Compounding. 
(c) Quality control procedures. 
(d) Dispensing. 
(e) Distribution. 
(f) Basic radiation protection and practices. 

(g) Consultation and education to the nuclear medicine community; including patients, pharmacists, other health professionals, 
and the general public. 

(h) Research and development of new formulations. 
(i) Record keeping. 
(j) Reporting adverse drug reactions and medication errors. 
(k) Screening for potential drug interaction. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125 FS. History—New 5-19-72, Amended 12-18-74, 10-17-79, Formerly 21S- 



1.27, 21S-1.027, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-26.301, 61F10-26.301, 59X-26.301, Amended 5-5-05. 

64B16-26.302 Subject Matter for Consultant Pharmacist Licensure Renewal Continuing Education. 
A Consultant Pharmacist License Renewal Continuing Education Program must contain at least three (3) hours of training in any of 
the subjects specified below. Duplicate courses are not acceptable. 

(1) Drug Therapy Disease State. Patient Drug Therapy management and monitoring. 
(a) Drug, Disease State Information In-depth disclosure of the drug or therapeutic class of drugs or disease state including 

pharmacology, side effects and interaction. 
(b) New Therapeutic Modalities: Expansion of current drug therapy or treatment. 
(c) Patient Assessment: Assessment techniques by consultant pharmacist to determine the need and effectiveness of indicated 

drug therapy along with identification and assessment of side effects on patient's well-being. 
(d) Pertinent Laboratory Tests. 
(e) Therapeutic Dosing. 
(2) Administrative Responsibilities. 
(a) Update on Administrative Responsibilities. 
1. Legal requirements including statutes, rules and regulation (Federal and State). 
2. The Joint Commission on the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations. 
3. Personnel requirements. 
4. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability. 
(b) Focus on Consultant Pharmacist Practice Issues/Concerns. 
1. How to get things accomplished in complex organizations. 
2. Key contacts to be effective as a consultant pharmacist. 
3. Considerations and preparation for site inspections. 
(3) Consultant Pharmacist Facility Responsibilities. This segment details the requirements in one of the facility types for which 

a consultant pharmacist is required. Only one practice setting may be included in each program. 
(a) Pharmacist-Medication Responsibilities Assessment mechanism for delivery system, review procedures and monitoring 

processes. 
(b) Pharmacist-Patient Responsibilities Patient assessment, laboratory test monitoring and therapeutic dosing. 
(c) Committee Responsibilities Make-up and responsibilities for various facility committees. 
(d) Reporting requirements. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125 'S. History—New 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-26.302, 61F1 0-26.3 02, 59X- 

26.302, Amended 5-5-05, 7-21-09. 

64B16-26.303 Nuclear Pharmacist Licensure. 
(1) A pharmacist licensed to practice pharmacy in this state who performs a radiopharmaceutical service shall, prior to engaging 

in such specialized practice, be actively licensed as a nuclear pharmacist. 
(2) A pharmacist seeking licensure as a nuclear pharmacist in this state shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy a course outline 

from an accredited college of pharmacy or other program recognized by the Florida Department of Health and the Florida Board of 
Pharmacy (a program comparable to those offered by accredited colleges of pharmacy for the training of nuclear pharmacists), and a 

certificate of training which provides a minimum of 200 clock hours of formal didactic training, which includes: 
(a) Radiation physics and instrumentation (85 hours). 
(b) Radiation protection (45 hours). 
(c) Mathematics pertaining to the use and measurement of radioactivity (20 hours). 
(d) Radiation biology (20 hours). 

(e) Radiopharmaceutical chemistry (30 hours). 
(3) Such academic training programs will be submitted to the Board of Pharmacy for approval by an accredited educational 

institution which operates under the auspices of or in conjunction with an accredited college of pharmacy. 
(4) The minimum on-the-job training which shall be included in a radiopharmacy internship is 500 hours of training and 

experience in the handling of unsealed radioactive material under the supervision of a licensed nuclear pharmacist. The training and 



experience shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 
(a) Ordering, receiving and unpackaging in a safe manner, radioactive material, including the performance of related radiation 

surveys. 
(b) Calibrating dose calibrators, scintillation detectors, and radiation monitoring equipment. 
(c) Calculating, preparing and verifying patient doses, including the proper use of radiation shields. 
(d) Following appropriate internal control procedures to prevent mislabeling. 
(e) Learning emergency procedures to safely handle and contain spilled materials, including related decontamination procedures 

and surveys. 
(f) Eluting technetium-99m from generator systems, assaying the eluate for technetium-99m and for molybdenum-99 

contamination, and processing the eluate with reagent kits to prepare technetium-99m labeled radiopharmaceuticals. 
(g) Clinical practice concepts. 
(5) If the didactic and experiential training required in this section have not been completed within the last seven (7) years, the 

applicant must have been engaged in the lawful practice of nuclear pharmacy in another jurisdiction at least 1080 hours during the 
last seven (7) years. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 465.0126 FS. History—New 1-18-05. 

64B16-26.304 Subject Matter for Nuclear Pharmacist License Renewal Continuing Education Programs. 
(1) A licensee completing the continuing education requirement for nuclear pharmacist license renewal pursuant to Rule 64B 16- 

26.103, F.A.C., shall complete twenty-four (24) additional hours per biennium of coursework each two year period by or through a 

Committee approved provider, instructionally designed to provide in-depth treatment of nuclear pharmacy practice with suggested 
subject matter set out in subsection (2) of this rule. 

(2) Content of nuclear pharmacist continuing education program. 
(a) Application of radiopharmaceutical theory in a practice or a research setting with respect to the drug products and their 

clinical application. Provision of drug and radiopharmaceutical information as it pertains to optimal handling and use of these 
products in a clinical setting. 

(b) Effective communication skills in a multi-disciplinary environment with patients, nuclear medicine physicians, nuclear 
medicine technologists, radiation safety personnel and other nuclear pharmacists. The multi-faceted regulatory environment requires 
such skills in the preparation and maintenance of a radioactive by-product materials license, the identification and reporting of 
adverse reactions and misadministration, instances of poor product performance, environmental and personnel radiation safety. 

(c) Application of the most rigorous and up-to-date principles of radiation safety and quality assurance in order to assure 
regulatory compendia, and operational standards for drug and radiopharmaceutical products and equipment. Record-keeping and 
other documentation activities essential to procurement, storage, compounding, handling and use, distribution and disposal should be 
emphasized. 

(d) Management of a nuclear pharmacy unit in accordance with regulatory and administrative agencies' requirements. 
(e) Advances in drug, radiopharmaceutical or related technology (including, but not limited to: monoclonal antibodies, magnetic 

resonance imaging, computed tomography, positron-emission tomography, radioplaque and other contact enhancement agents, 
radioimmunoassay) with emphasis on paragraphs (a)-(d) above for such new agents. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0126 FS. Law Implemented 465.0126 FS. History—New 1-18-05. 

64B16-26.320 Subject Matter for Continuing Education to Order and Evaluate Laboratory Tests. 
(1) Consultant pharmacists and pharmacists holding the Doctor of Pharmacy degree that wish to order and evaluate laboratory 

tests under the provisions of Section 465.0125, F.S., shall successfully complete the requirements of a continuing education course 
set forth herein prior to such practice. Successful completion of the course will the pharmacist for this practice for two (2) 
years from date of completion. 

(2) Providers of courses seeking approval under this section shall meet the procedures and standards provided for in Rule 
64B16-26.601, F.A.C. Courses approved under this section shall be at least three (3) hours in duration for initial certification and at 

least one (1) hour for recertification, and shall cover the following subjects: 
(a) Requirements for monitoring laboratory values, 
(b) Interpretation of laboratory values, 



(c) Use of laboratory data to monitor and improve drug therapy, 
(d) Legal aspects, restrictions, and requirements for obtaining laboratory studies, 
(e) Use of laboratory data and therapeutic outcomes, 
(f) Documentation of interventions, and 
(g) Laboratory studies as an element of complete patient care. 

(3) A consultant pharmacist may apply the three (3) hour initial certification course and the one (1) hour recertification course 
toward the continuing education requirement for renewal of a consultant pharmacist license under Rule 64B 16-26.300, F.A.C., or 
may apply such continuing education hours toward the continuing education requirement for renewal of a pharmacist license under 
Rule 64Bl6-26.l03, F.A.C., but may not use the same continuing education hours to both requirements. A Doctor of 
Pharmacy who is not a consultant pharmacist may apply the three (3) hour initial certification course and the one (1) hour 
recertification course toward the continuing education requirement for renewal of a pharmacist license under Rule 64Bl6-26. 103, 

F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.009, 465.0125(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.009, 465.0125(2) FS. History—New 2-23-98, Amended 6-15-98, 1-12-03, 3- 

1 0-05. 

64B16-26.350 Requirements for Pharmacy Technician Registration. 
Applicants who are at least 17 years of age may apply to become a registered pharmacy technician. 

(1) All applicants for registration must be made on form DH-MQA PH1 183, "Pharmacy Technician Registration Application 
and Instructions" effective September 2009, which is incorporated by reference. Contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald 
Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595 to request an application or download the application from 
the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. The application must be accompanied with a non-refundable 
application fee and an initial registration fee set forth in Rules 64B16-26.lOOl and 64Bl6-26.1002, F.A.C. 

(2) Prior to January 1, 2011, a registered pharmacy technician must submit proof of having met one of the following 
requirements: 

(a) Completed a Board approved training course as outlined in Rule 64B16-26.351, F.A.C; or 
(b) Worked as a registered pharmacy technician for a minimum of 1500 hours under the supervision of a pharmacist; or 
(c) Received certification as a pharmacy technician by a certification program accredited by the National Commission for 

Certifying Agencies. 
(3) Applicants applying for registration after January 1, 2011 must submit proof of completion of a Board approved training 

course as outlined in Rule 64B16-26.351, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 8-5-10. 

64B16-26.351 Standards for Approval of Registered Pharmacy Technician Training Programs. 
(1) The following programs are approved Registered Pharmacy Technician Training programs: 
(a) Pharmacy technician training programs accredited, on or before January 1, 2011 by the American Society of Health-System 

Pharmacists, 
(b) Pharmacy technician training programs at institutions accredited, on or before January 1, 2011 by the Southern Association 

of Colleges and Schools, 
(c) Pharmacy technician training programs approved on or before January 1, 2011 by the Florida Commission for Independent 

Education, 
(d) Pharmacy technician training programs provided by a branch of the federal armed services on or before January 1, 2011. 
(e) Pharmacy technician training programs at institutions accredited on or before January 1, 2011 by the Council on 

Occupational Education. 
(2) All programs not listed in paragraphs (1)(a) through (e) and which are not employer based programs, must: 

(a) Meet the requirements of and be licensed by the Commission for Independent Education pursuant to Chapter 1005, F.S., or 

the equivalent licensing authority of another state or be within the public school system of the State of Florida; and: 

(b) Offer a course of study that includes classroom study and clinical instruction that includes the following: 
1. Introduction to pharmacy and health care systems: 
a. Confidentiality, 



b. Patient rights and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 
2. Pharmacy law: 

a. Federal law, 

b. Florida State law, 
c. Florida State rules, 

d. Pharmacy technician Florida rules and law, 

3. Pharmaceutical medical terminology, abbreviations, and symbols: 
a. Medication safety and error prevention, 
b. Prescriptions and medication orders, 
4. Records management and inventory control: 
a. Pharmaceutical supplies, 
b. Medication labeling, 
c. Medication packaging and storage, 
d. Controlled substances, 
e. Adjudication and billing, 
5. Interpersonal relations, communications, and ethics: 
a. Diversity of communications, 
b. Empathetic communications, 
c. Ethics governing pharmacy practice, 
d. Patient and caregiver communication, 
6. Pharmaceutical calculations. 
(c) Apply directly to the Board of Pharmacy on approved form DH-MQA 1239 "Board of Pharmacy Application for Registered 

Pharmacy Technician Training Programs," effective December 2010, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference. To obtain an application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress 

Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3254, or (850) 488-0595, or download the application from the board's website at 

http//:www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy and provide the following information: 
1. Sample transcript and diploma; 
2. Copy of curriculum, catalog or other course descriptions; and 
3. Faculty credentials. 
(d) Use materials and methods that demonstrate that: 
1. Learning experiences and teaching methods convey the content stated above. 
2. Time allocated for each participant shall be sufficient to meet the objectives of each activity. 
3. Principles of adult education are utilized in determining teaching strategies and learning activities. 
(e) Demonstrate that the faculty is qualified to teach the subject-matter by complying with the following: 
1. The program shall provide evidence of academic preparation or experience in the subject matter by submitting a job 

description, resume or curriculum vitae which describes the faculty member's work experience and level of academic preparation. 
2. When the subject matter of an offering includes pharmacy technician practice, a licensed pharmacist or registered pharmacy 

technician with expertise in the content area must be involved in the planning and instruction. 
3. Pharmacy technician faculty supervising learning experiences in a clinical area in this State shall be licensed or registered. 
(3) All other training programs must be employer based. Any pharmacy technician training program sponsored by a Florida 

permitted pharmacy or affiliated group of pharmacies under common ownership, must contain a minimum of 160 hours of training, 
that extends over a period not to exceed 6 months; is provided solely to employees of said pharmacy or affiliated group; and has 
been approved by the Board. An application for approval of a Registered Pharmacy Technician Training Program shall be made on 
Board of Pharmacy approved form DH-MQA 1239 "Board of Pharmacy Application for Registered Pharmacy Technician Training 
Programs," effective December 2010. The applicant must attach to the application copy of curriculum, catalog or other course 
description. All employer based programs must: 

(a) Offer a course of study that includes a classroom study and clinical instruction that includes the following: 
1. Introduction to pharmacy and health care systems: 
a. Confidentiality, 



b. Patient rights and Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). 
2. Pharmacy law: 

a. Federal law, 

b. Florida State law, 
c. Florida State rules, 

d. Pharmacy technician Florida rules and law. 

3. Pharmaceutical-medical terminology, abbreviations, and symbols: 
a. Medication safety and error prevention, 
b. Prescriptions and medication orders. 
4. Records management and inventory control: 
a. Pharmaceutical supplies, 
b. Medication labeling, 
c. Medication packaging and storage, 
d. Controlled substances, 
e. Adjudication and billing. 
5. Interpersonal relations, communications, and ethics: 
a. Diversity of communications, 
b. Empathetic communications, 
c. Ethics governing pharmacy practice, 
d. Patient and caregiver communication. 
6. Pharmaceutical calculations. 
(b) Use materials and methods that demonstrate that: 
1. Learning experiences and teaching methods convey the content stated above. 
2. Time allocated for each participant shall be sufficient to meet the objectives of each activity. 
3. Principles of adult education are utilized in determining teaching strategies and learning activities. 
(c) Demonstrate that the faculty is qualified to teach the subject matter by complying with the following: 
1. The program shall provide evidence of academic preparation or experience in the subject matter by submitting a job 

description, resume or curriculum vitae which describes the faculty member's work experience and level of academic preparation. 
2. When the subject matter of an offering includes pharmacy technician practice, a licensed pharmacist or registered pharmacy 

technician with expertise in the content area must be involved in the planning and instruction. 
3. Pharmacy technician faculty supervising learning experiences in a clinical area in this State shall be licensed or registered. 
4. When an offering includes clinical practice training in Florida, a Florida licensed pharmacist competent in the practice area 

shall provide supervision. 
(d) Give participants an opportunity to evaluate learning experiences, instructional methods, facilities and resources used for the 

offering. To ensure participants will be given an opportunity to evaluate the program, the applicant must submit a sample evaluation 
to be reviewed by the Board. 

(e) Ensure that self-directed learning experiences, including but not limited to home study, computer programs, internet or web- 
based courses evaluate participant knowledge at the completion of the learning experience. The evaluation must include a minimum 
of 100 questions. The participant must achieve a minimum score of 70% on the evaluation to receive the certificate of completion. 
The evaluation must be graded by the provider. 

1) Designate a person to assume responsibility for registered pharmacy technician training program. If the contact person is not 
a licensed pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician, provision should be made for insuring licensed pharmacist or registered 
pharmacy technician input in overall program planning and evaluation. 

(g) Establish written policies and procedures for implementation of the registered pharmacy technician training program. 
(h) Maintain a system of record-keeping which provides for storage of program information. 
(i) Maintain program records for a period not less than three years during which time the records must be available for 

inspection by the board or department. 
(j) Furnish each participant with an authenticated individual Certificate of Completion. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 6-23-10, Amended 11-17-11. 



64B16-26.355 Subject Matter for Registered Pharmacy Technician Continuing Education. 
A Registered Pharmacy Technician Continuing Education Program must contain subject matter specifically designed to meet the 
objectives and the stated level and learning needs of the participants. The content shall be planned in logical order and reflect input 
from experts in the subject matter. Appropriate subject matter for continuing education offering shall reflect the professional 
educational needs for the learner in order to meet the health care needs of the consumer and consist of content from one or more of 
the following: 

(1) Pharmacy technician practice areas and special health care problems. 
(2) Biological, physical, behavioral and social sciences. 
(3) Legal aspects of health care. 
(4) Management/administration of health care personnel and patient care. 

(5) Teaching/learning process of health care personnel and patients. 
(6) Subj ects which are taken at an accredited educational institution as verified by an official transcript, that meet any one of the 

criteria in Rule 64B16-26.351, F.A.C., and are advanced beyond that completed for original registration shall be approved for 
continuing education under this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 10-10-10. 

64B16-26.400 Pharmacy Interns; Registration; Employment. 
(1) A pharmacy intern is required to be registered with the Department of Health as an intern before being employed as an 

intern in a pharmacy in Florida. 
(2) An applicant for pharmacy intern registration must submit proof of: 

(a) Enrollment in an intern program at an accredited college or school of pharmacy or; 

(b) Graduation from an accredited college or school of pharmacy and not yet licensed in the state. For purposes of this rule only, 
any individual who has been accepted by the Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Examination Commission to sit for the Foreign Pharmacy 
Graduate Equivalency Examination shall be considered a graduate of an accredited college or school of pharmacy. The internship 
experience allowed under this provision shall not count toward the 500-hours internship required subsequent to passage of the 

Foreign Pharmacy Graduate Equivalency Examination as mandated in Section 465 .007(l)(b)2., F.S., and as defined in Rule 64B16- 
26.203, F.A.C. 

(3) Upon the receipt of proof satisfactory to the Board that the intern applicant meets the requirements of either paragraph (a) or 
(b) of subsection (2), and unless there exists good cause for the Board's refhsal to certify an applicant as set forth in Section 
465.013, F.S., the Board shall certify the applicant to the Department for registration as an intern. 

(4) No intern shall perform any acts relating to the filling, compounding, or dispensing of medicinal drugs unless it is done 
under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a person actively licensed to practice pharmacy in this state. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.013 FS. History—Amended 8-20-63, 5-19-72, 8-18-73, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 11-10-80, 4-30-85, Formerly 21S-1.21, Amended 10-20-88, Formerly 21S-1.021, Amended 7-31-91, 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.400, 

61F10-26.400, 59X-26.400, Amended 3-10-05. 

64B16-26.401 Requirements for an Internship Program Sufficient to Qualify an Applicant for Licensure by Examination. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.007 FS. History—New 8-20-83, Amended 5-19-72, 8-18-73, 12-18-74, 11-10-80, 10-25- 

84, Formerly 21S-1.22, 21S-1.022, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-26.401, Amended 12-27-93, Formerly 61F10-26.401, 59X-26.401, Amended 

4-19-01, Repealed 3-10-05. 



64B16-26.600 Tripartite Continuing Education Committee. 
(1) The Tripartite Continuing Education Committee will be composed of equal representation from the Board of Pharmacy, 

each College or School of Pharmacy in the State, and practicing pharmacists within the State. The members of the Committee shall 
be selected by the Board of Pharmacy and shall serve for a period of two years. The chairman of the committee shall be selected by 
the Chair of the Board. 

(2) The Tripartite Continuing Education Committee shall perform the following duties pursuant to Rule 64B 16-26.601, F.A.C.: 

(a) Review continuing education providers and make recommendations to the Board; 
(b) Approve continuing education course or program for approved providers or individuals that are non-approved providers for 

the following: 
1. General; 
2. Initial Consultant Pharmacist Certification; 
3. Consultant Recertification; 
4. Nuclear Recertification; 
5. Medication Errors; 
6. HIV/AIDS; 
7. Laboratory Tests; 
8. Laws and Rules; 
9. Quality Related Events. 
(3) The Tripartite Continuing Education Committee shall perform auditing and monitoring activities pursuant to Rule 64B 16- 

26.601, F.A.C. The Tripartite Committee shall perform an audit on each approved continuing education provider 90 days prior to the 

end of the biennium. The approved provider shall submit the following information for one program of the provider's choosing and 
one program selected by the Board: 

(a) Title, date and location of the program; 
(b) Program Number; 
(c) Any Co-sponsors; 
(d) Total number of pharmacists attending; 
(e) Rosters of attendees with appropriate license numbers; 
(f) Brochures of program announcement; 
(g) CV's of each speaker; 
(h) Handouts, Copy of CE Credit statement, educational materials distributed as part of the program; and 
(i) Summary report of program evaluations. 
(4) The Committee shall hold meetings as may be convened at the call of the Chairman of the Committee. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.009(5) FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-18-79, Amended 7-29-81, Formerly 21S-13.01, 

21S-13.001, 21S-26.600, 61F10-26.600, 59X-26.600, Amended 10-15-01, 3-10-05, 6-11-09. 

64B16-26.601 Standards for Approval of Courses and Providers. 
(1) Each proposal for program or course approval submitted by a qualified provider must contain a detailed outline of the 

content of said program or course on forms which will be provided by the Board of Pharmacy upon request, and must build upon 
Standards of Practice and a basic course or courses offered in the curricula of accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy. 
Continuing education may consist of post-baccalaureate degree programs offered by accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy, 
post-graduate studies, institutes, seminars, lectures, conferences, workshops, correspondence courses, or other such committee- 
approved educational methods. 

(2) All offerings must meet the following standards: 
(a) Education Content Development. 
1. Continuing education offerings shall involve advance planning that includes a statement of measurable educational goals and 

behavioral objectives. 
2. Continuing education offerings shall be designed to reflect the educational needs of the pharmacist and build on the standards 

for practice and courses in the curricula of accredited colleges or schools of pharmacy. 
3. Each continuing education offering shall be designed to explore one subject or a group of closely related subjects or 



standards. 
(b) Methods of Delivery. 
1. The method of delivery of a course shall be determined by giving appropriate consideration to such factors as educational 

content, objectives, and composition of the audience. 
2. The method of delivery must encourage active participation and involvement on the part of the pharmacist. 
(c) Program Faculty Qualifications. 
1. The program faculty for a particular continuing education offering shall be competent in the subject matter and qualified by 

experience. 
2. An appropriate number of program faculty for each activity shall be utilized. 
3. There shall be adequate personnel to assist with administrative matters and personnel with competencies outside content areas 

in cases where the method of delivery requires technical or other special expertise. 
(d) Facilities. 
1. The facilities to be utilized shall be appropriate and adequate to the content, method of delivery, size of the audience and 

promote the attainment of the objectives of the offering. 
(e) Evaluation. The provider must make provision for evaluation of the participants' attainment of the stated learner objectives 

through in-process activities that provide a measurable demonstration of the learner's achievement(s). 
2. The provider must develop and employ an evaluation mechanism for the purpose of allowing the participant to assess his/her 

achievement of personal objectives. 
3. The provider shall develop and employ an evaluation mechanism that will assess the effectiveness of the learning 

experiences, instructional methods, facilities, and resources used for the offering. 
(f) Contact Hour Criteria. The number of contact hours or Continuing Education Units shall be determined by the provider in 

advance of the offering subject to approval by the committee and awarded upon the successful completion of the entire planned 
education experience. 

(g) Record Keeping. 
1. Records of individual offerings shall be maintained by the provider for inspection by the Board. The records shall be 

adequate to serve the needs of the participants and to pennit the Board to monitor for adherence to the standards for continuing 
education offerings as outlined in the rules. 

2. An individual certificate of attendance specifying title of offering, provider number, date of offering, and number of contact 
hours earned shall be furnished to each participant by the provider. 

3. Records shall be maintained by the provider for a minimum of three (3) years. 

(3) Providers seeking board approval shall meet each of the standards outlined herein: 
(a) All continuing education offerings conducted by the provider shall meet the standards for continuing education offerings as 

outlined in these rules. 
(b) There shall be a visible, continuous, and identifiable authority charged with administration of continuing education 

programs. The person or persons in whom the administrative function is vested shall be qualified by virtue of background and 
experience and approval by the committee. 

(4) All programs approved by the Accreditation Council on Pharmacy Education (ACPE) for continuing education for 
pharmacists may be deemed approved by this Board for general continuing education hours for pharmacists. 

(5) Entities or individuals who wish to become approved providers of continuing education must submit an initial approval fee 

of $150 and provide information to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of this rule. A provider seeking to renew 
approved provider status shall pay a renewal fee of $150. 

(6) Entities or individuals applying for approval of an individual program shall submit a fee of $50 and provide information to 
demonstrate compliance with this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.009 FS. Law Implemented 456.025(7), 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 7-29-81, Formerly 21S- 

13.02, 21S-13.002, Amended 1-10-93, Formerly 21S-26.601, 61F10-26.601, 59X-26.601, Amended 1-29-03. 

64B16-26.6012 Guidelines for Board Ordered Disciplinary Continuing Education Courses. 
Any continuing education course being taken as part of a disciplinary order, unless otherwise ordered by the Board, may be 
conducted by any method, including live, correspondence, or distant education. 



(1) Laws and Rules courses shall be at least twelve (12) hours in length. The program shall include review and analysis of the 
laws regulating the profession of pharmacy in the State of Florida with discussion of recent changes to Florida Statutes and Board of 
Pharmacy rules. The remainder of the continuing education program shall be derived from the following areas: 

(a) Federal laws related to: 

1. Handling, management, and dispensing of controlled substances; 
2. Protected patient information; and 
3. Medicare. 
(b) Chapters 456, 499 and 893, F.S; 

(c) Florida Medicaid program; 
(d) Nursing home and Assisted Living Facility regulations; 
(e) Prescriber laws and regulations; 

(0 Pharmacy ethics; 

(g) The Joint Commission (TJC) standards; 
(h) Food and Drug Administration policies and procedures; 
(i) Implementation of disaster and emergency preparedness plans by Florida pharmacists and pharmacy services providers; and 
(j) Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 

guidelines and requirements for pharmacy employers. 
(2) Quality Related Event (QRE) courses shall be at least eight (8) hours in length. 

(a) Course material shall include: 
1. Pharmacy error detection; 
2. Pharmacy error prevention; and 
3. Case studies of pharmacists who have made dosing calculation, checking/interpreting prescriptions, or dispensing errors. 
(b) Course material shall include the following specific subject areas: 
1. Common error types and causes; 
2. Root cause analysis; 
3. Process mapping and management; 
4. System analysis; 
5. Failure mode and effects analysis; 
6. Human factors, cognitive and personality impacts; 
7. Practice management and effective delegation tools; 
8. Stress management; 
9. Effective communication; 
10. Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) rules; 
11. CQI implementation tools; 
12. Individual self assessment, planning, and goal setting. The individual self assessment shall include a requirement that the 

pharmacist prepare a written report, in essay form, summarizing the impact of the course, what the pharmacist learned, and the 
changes that the pharmacist will implement in practice as a result of the course. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.072(2) 465.005, 465.016(4) FS. Law Implemented 456.072(2), 465.016(4) FS. History—New 7-21-09. 

64B16-26.602 Recommendation by the Tripartite Continuing Education Committee. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Amended 7-29-81, Formerly 21S-13.03, 21S-13.003, 

21S-26. 602, Amended 7-18-94, Formerly 61F10-26. 602, 59X-26. 602, Repealed 8-16-01 



64B16-26.603 Continuing Education Records Requirements. 
Each pharmacist shall retain documentation of participation in continuing education programs required for license renewal for not 
less than two years after the license is renewed for audit purposes if and when such audit is undertaken by the Department of Health 
and the Board of Pharmacy. Such documentation shall consist of statements of credit for lecture attendance, certification forms from 
instructors, or course completion slips from correspondence courses. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-13.04, Amended 5-10-89, Formerly 21S- 

13.004, 21S-26.603, 61F10-26.603, 59X-26.603, Amended 1-11-05. 

64B16-26.606 Number of Required Hours. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.009 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-13.07, 21S-13.007, Amended 7-31-91, 

Formerly 21S-26. 606, 61F10-26. 606, 59X-26. 606, Amended 2-23-98, 1-12-03, Repealed 3-1 0-05. 



CHAPTER 64B16-27 
PHARMACY PRACTICE 

64B16-27.l00 Display of Current License; Pharmacist, Registered Pharmacy Technician Intern Identification 
64B16-27.1001 Practice of Pharmacy 
64B 16-27.1003 Transmission of Prescription Orders 
64B 16-27.101 Counterfeit Drugs 
64B16-27.103 Oral Prescriptions and Copies 
64B 16-27.104 Conduct Governing Pharmacists and Pharmacy Permittees 
64B 16-27.1042 Rebates Prohibited; Violations Defined 
64B 16-27.105 Transfer of Prescriptions 
64B 16-27.120 Ordering and Evaluation of Laboratory Tests 
64B16-27.200 Purpose and Effect 
64B 16-27.210 General Terms and Conditions to Be Followed by a Pharmacist When Ordering and Dispensing Approved 

Medicinal Drug Products 
64B16-27.211 Prescription Refills 
64B 16-27.220 Medicinal Drugs Which May Be Ordered by Pharmacists 
64B 16-27.230 Fluoride Containing Products 
64B 16-27.300 Standards of Practice - Continuous Quality Improvement Program 
64B16-27.400 Practice of Pharmacy (Repealed) 
64B 16-27.410 Registered Pharmacy Technician, to Pharmacist Ratio 
64B 16-27.420 Registered Pharmacy Technician Responsibilities 
64B16-27.430 Responsibilities of the Pharmacist 
64B16-27.440 Policies and Procedures 
64B 16-27.500 Negative Drug Formulary 
64B16-27.510 Identification of Manufacturer 
64B16-27.520 Positive Drug Formulary 
64B 16-27.530 Duty of Pharmacist to Inform Regarding Drug Substitution 
64B16-27.615 Possession and Disposition of Sample Medicinal Drugs 
64B16-27.620 Disposition of Complimentary or Sample Medicinal Drugs Which Are Unsuitable for Dispensing (Repealed) 
64B 16-27.700 Definition of Compounding 
64B16-27.797 Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs) 
64B 16-27.800 Requirement for Patient Records 
64B16-27.810 Prospective Drug Use Review 
64B16-27.820 Patient Counseling 
64B 16-27.830 Standards of Practice - Drug Therapy Management 
64B16-27.831 Standards of Practice for the Dispensing of Controlled Substances for Treatment of Pain 
64B16-27.850 Standards of Practice for Orthotics and Pedorthics 
64B 16-27.851 Record-Keeping for Orthotics and Pedorthics 

64B16-27.100 Display of Current License; Pharmacist, Registered, Intern, and Registered Pharmacy Technician 
Identification. 

(1) The current license of each pharmacist engaged in the practice of the profession of pharmacy as defined by Section 
465.003(13), F.S., in any pharmacy shall be displayed, when applicable, in a conspicuous place in or near the prescription 
department, and in such manner that said license can be easily read by patrons of said establishment. Pharmacists employed in 

secondary practice sites shall present a valid wallet license as evidence of licensure upon request. 
(2) No pharmacist shall display, cause to be displayed or allow to be displayed, their license in any pharmacy where said 

pharmacist is not engaged in the practice of the profession as defined in Section 465.003(13), F.S. 

(3) A pharmacist and registered pharmacy intern must be clearly identified by a means such as an identification badge or 
monogrammed smock showing their name and if they are a pharmacist or a registered pharmacy intern. 

(4) The current registration of each registered pharmacy technician shall be displayed, when applicable, in a conspicuous place 
in or near the prescription department, and in such a manner that can be easily read by patrons of said establishment. Registered 



pharmacy technicians employed in a secondary practice site shall present a valid wallet registration as evidence of registration upon 
request. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Formerly 21S-1.06, 21S-1.006, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.100, 61F10-27.100, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-27.100, Amended 11-18- 

07, 1-1-10. 

64B16-27.1001 Practice of Pharmacy. 
Those functions within the definition of the practice of the profession of pharmacy, as defined by Section 465.003(13), F.S., are 

specifically reserved to a pharmacist or a duly registered pharmacy intern in this state acting under the direct and immediate personal 
supervision of a pharmacist. The following subjects come solely within the purview of the pharmacist. 

(1) A pharmacist or registered pharmacy intern must: 
(a) Supervise and be responsible for the controlled substance inventory. 
(b) Receive verbal prescriptions from a practitioner. 
(c) Interpret and identify prescription contents. 
(d) Engage in consultation with a practitioner regarding interpretation of the prescription and date in patient profile. 
(e) Engage in professional communication with practitioners, nurses or other health professionals. 
(f) Advise or consult with a patient, both as to the prescription and the patient profile record. 
(2) When parenteral and bulk solutions of all sizes are prepared, regardless of the route of administration, the pharmacist must: 

(a) Interpret and identify all incoming orders. 
(b) Mix all extemporaneous compounding or be physically present and give direction to the registered pharmacy technician for 

reconstitution, for addition of additives, or for bulk compounding of the parenteral solution. 
(c) Physically examine, certifSi to the accuracy of the final preparation, thereby assuming responsibility for the final preparation. 
(d) Systemize all records and documentation of processing in such a manner that professional responsibility can be easily traced 

to a pharmacist. 
(3) Only a pharmacist may make the final check of the completed prescription thereby assuming the complete responsibility for 

its preparation and accuracy. 
(4) The pharmacist, as an integral aspect of dispensing, shall be directly and immediately available to the patient or the patient's 

agent for consultation and shall not dispense to a third party. No prescription shall be deemed to be properly dispensed unless the 
pharmacist is personally available. 

(5) The pharmacist performing in this state any of the acts defined as "the practice of the profession of pharmacy" in Section 
465.003(13), F.S., shall be actively licensed as a pharmacist in this state, regardless of whether the practice occurs in a permitted 
location (facility) or other location. 

(6) The pharmacist may take a meal break, not to exceed 30 minutes in length, during which the pharmacy department of a 

permittee shall not be considered closed, under the following conditions: 
(a) The pharmacist shall be considered present and on duty during any such meal break if a sign has been prominently posted in 

the pharmacy indicating the specific hours of the day during which meal breaks may be taken by the pharmacist and assuring 
patients that a pharmacist is available on the premises for consultation upon request during a meal break. 

(b) The pharmacist shall be considered directly and immediately available to patients during such meal breaks if patients to 

whom medications are delivered during meal breaks are verbally informed that they may request that a pharmacist contact them at 

the pharmacist's earliest convenience after the meal break, and if a pharmacist is available on the premises during the meal break for 
consultation regarding emergency matters. Only prescriptions with the final certification by the pharmacist may be delivered. 

(c) The activities of registered pharmacy technicians during such a meal break shall be considered to be under the direct and 
immediate personal supervision of a pharmacist if the pharmacist is available on the premises during the meal break to respond to 
questions by the technicians, and if at the end of the meal break the pharmacist certifies all prescriptions prepared by the registered 
pharmacy technicians during the meal break. 

(7) The delegation of any duties, tasks or functions to registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians must be 
performed subject to a continuing review and ultimate supervision of the pharmacist who instigated the specific task, so that a 

continuity of supervised activity is present between one pharmacist and one registered pharmacy technician. In every pharmacy, the 





permits and limited pharmacist workload that would allow the manager to carry out all duties and responsibilities required of a 

prescription department manager. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.018, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.018, 465.022, 465.024 FS. History—New 10-20-81, 

Formerly 21S-1.20, 21S-1.020, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.104, 61F10-27.104, 59X-27.104, Amended 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.1042 Rebates Prohibited; Violations Defined. 
As provided in Section 465.185(1), F.S., acts which will be considered as falling within the range of activities which would justify 
discipline against a pharmacist or permittee as provided in Section 465.016(l)(e) or Section 465.023(l)(c), F.S., shall include: 

(1) Offering or providing cash, or goods, or entertainment (including, money, food or decorations) to a health care facility (as 

defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) or its representative in exchange for favorable consideration in obtaining or maintaining the 
business of the facility; 

(2) Offering or providing supplies or equipment to a health care facility (as defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) at no charge or 
below market value when these items are not integral elements of the medication distribution system; 

(3) Paying rent to a health care facility (as defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) for space that is not used or is unusable or 

paying a rental rate for space that is significantly greater than the usual and customary rental rate for similar space; 
(4) Offering or providing computers, FAX machines, or other electronic devices to a health care facility (as defined in Section 

408.032(7), F.S.) when that equipment is not an integral element in providing pharmacy or consultant services; 
(5) Offering or providing a health care facility (as defined in Section 408.032(7), F.S.) consultant pharmacist services, or 

providing patient medical record systems, or any personnel services outside the practice of pharmacy, at no charge, below market 
value, or below cost in exchange for obtaining or maintaining the business of the facility. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.185, 465.0155 FS. History—New 3-9-94, Formerly 61F10-2 7.1 042, 59X- 

27.1042. 

64B16-27.105 Transfer of Prescriptions. 
(1) A pharmacist or registered pharmacy intern acting under the direct personal supervision of a Florida registered pharmacist 

may transfer a valid prescription which is on file in another pharmacy in this state or any other state if such transfer is consistent 
with the conditions set forth in Section 465.026, F.S. Prior to dispensing, the pharmacist or pharmacy where the prescription is on 
file shall be notified verbally, or by any electronic means that the former prescription must be voided. 

(2) In processing a transferred prescription pursuant to Section 465.026, F.S., the pharmacist has the option of substituting a 

generically equivalent product if such substitution is consistent with the provisions of Section 465.025, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.026 FS. History—New 1-3-79, Formerly 21S-1.33, 21S-1.033, Amended 7-30- 

91, Formerly 21S-2 7.1 05, 61F10-27.105, Amended 9-19-94, Formerly 59X-2 7.1 05, Amended 6-15-98. 

64B16-27.120 Ordering and Evaluation of Laboratory Tests. 
Those consultant pharmacists and pharmacists holding the Doctor of Pharmacy degree that meet the continuing education 
requirements of Rule 64B 16-26.320, F.A.C., may order and evaluate laboratory tests to the extent allowed by the provisions of 
Section 465.0125, F.S. Evidence of such training and authorization to perform these tasks shall be furnished to the board, the patient, 
or the patient's physician upon request. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0125(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.0125(2) FS. History—New 2-23-98. 

64B16-27.200 Purpose and Effect. 
The purpose of this rule chapter is to set forth pursuant to the requirements of Section 465.186, F.S., the medicinal drug products 
which may be ordered and dispensed by pharmacists to the public and to set forth the terms and conditions under which such 
ordering and dispensing by the pharmacist may take place. The list of drugs set forth below and the conditions under which said 
drugs may be ordered and dispensed have been determined pursuant to a joint committee of medical, osteopathic and pharmacy 
professionals as created by Section 465.186, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Formerly 21S-18.001, 21S-27.200, 61F10-27.200, 59X- 



2 7.200. 

64B16-27.210 General Terms and Conditions to Be Followed by a Pharmacist When Ordering and Dispensing Approved 
Medicinal Drug Products. 
Pursuant to the authority of the Formulary Committee in Section 465.186, F.S., a pharmacist may order the medicinal drug products 
listed in Rule 64B16-27.220, F.A.C., subject to the following terms and limitations: 

(1) Injectable products shall not be ordered by the pharmacist. 
(2) No oral medicinal drugs shall be ordered by a pharmacist for a pregnant patient or nursing mother. 
(3) In any case of dispensing hereunder, the amount or quantity of drug dispensed shall not exceed a 34-day supply or standard 

course of treatment unless subject to the specific limitations in this rule. Patients shall be advised that they should seek the advice of 
an appropriate health care provider if their present condition, symptom, or complaint does not improve upon the completion of the 
drug regimen. 

(4) The directions for use of all prescribed medicinal drugs shall not exceed the manufacturer's recommended dosage. 
(5) The pharmacist may only perform the acts of ordering and dispensing in a pharmacy which has been issued a permit by the 

Board of Pharmacy. 
(6) The pharmacist shall create a prescription when ordering and dispensing medicinal drug products which shall be maintained 

in the prescription files of the pharmacy. The pharmacist shall place the trade or generic name and the quantity dispensed on the 
prescription label, in addition to all other label requirements. 

(7) The pharmacist shall maintain patient profiles, separate from the prescription order, for all patients for whom the pharmacist 
orders and dispenses medicinal drug products and shall initial and date each profile entry. Such profiles shall be maintained at the 
pharmacy wherein the ordering and dispensing originated for a period of two (2) years. 

(8) In the patient profiles, the pharmacist shall record as a minimum the following information if a medicinal drug product is 

ordered and dispensed. 
(a) Patient's chief complaint or condition in the patient's own words. 
(b) A statement regarding the patient's medical history. 
(c) A statement regarding the patient's current complaint which may include, onset, duration and frequency of the problem. 
(d) The medicinal drug product ordered and dispensed. 
(e) The pharmacist ordering and dispensing the medicinal drug product shall initial the profile. 
(f) The prescription number shall be recorded in the patient's profile. 
(9) A medicinal drug product may be ordered, and dispensed only by the pharmacist so ordering. 
(10) Only legend medicinal drugs may be prescribed by a pharmacist. Over-the-counter drugs are exempt from the requirements 

of this rule and shall be recommended as over-the-counter products. 
(11) Pharmacy interns and technicians may not be involved in the ordering of the medicinal drugs permitted in this rule. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Formerly 21S-18.002, 21S-27.210, 61F10-27.210, 59X- 

2 7.210, Amended 11-18-0 7. 

64B16-27.211 Prescription Refills. 
No prescription may be filled or refilled in excess of one (1) year from the date of the original prescription was written. No 
prescription for a controlled substance listed in Schedule II may be refilled. No prescription for a controlled substance listed in 

Schedules III, IV, or V may be filled or refilled more than five (5) times within a period of six (6) months after the date on which the 
prescription was written. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.016(1), 465.0220) (a), 893.04 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 11-18-0 7. 

64B16-27.220 Medicinal Drugs Which May Be Ordered by Pharmacists. 
A Pharmacist may order and dispense from the following formulary, within their professional judgment, subject to the stated 
conditions. 

(1) Oral analgesics for mild to moderate pain. The pharmacist may order these drugs for minor pain and menstrual cramps for 
patients with no history of peptic ulcer disease. The prescription shall be limited to a six (6) day supply for one treatment. If 
appropriate, the prescription shall be labeled to be taken with food or milk. 



(a) Magnesium salicylate/phenyltoloxamine citrate. 
(b) Acetylsalicylic acid (Zero order release, long acting tablets). 
(c) Choline salicylate and magnesium salicylate. 
(d) Naproxen sodium. 
(e) Naproxen. 
(f) Ibuprofen. 
(2) Urinary analgesics. Phenazopyridine, not exceeding a two (2) day supply. The prescriptions shall be labeled about the 

tendency to discolor urine. If appropriate, the prescription shall be labeled to be taken after meals. 
(3) Otic analgesics. Antipyrine 5.4%, benzocaine 1.4%, glycerin, if clinical signs or symptions of tympanic membrane 

perforation do not exist. The product shall be labeled for use in the ear only. 
(4) Anti-nausea preparations. 
(a) Meclizine up to 25 mg., except for a patient currently using a central nervous system (CNS) depressant. The prescription 

shall be labeled to advise the patient of drowsiness and to caution against concomitant use with alcohol or other depressants. 
(b) Scopolamine not exceeding 1.5 mg. per dermal patch. Patient shall be warned to seek appropriate medical attention if eye 

pain, redness or decreased vision develops. 
(5) Antihistamines and decongestants. The following, including their salts, either as a single ingredient product or in 

combination, including nasal decongestants, may be ordered for a patient above 6 years of age. 

(a) Antihistamines. The pharmacist shall warn the patient that an antihistamine should not be used by patients with bronchial 
asthma or other lower respiratory symptoms, glaucoma, cardiovascular disorders, hypertension, prostate conditions and urinary 
retention. An antihistamine shall be labeled to advise the patient of drowsiness and caution against the concomitant use with alcohol 
or other depressants. 

1. Diphenhydramine. 
2. Carbinoxamine. 
3. Pyrilamine. 
4. Dexchlorpheniramine. 
5. Brompheniramine. 
(b) Decongestants. The pharmacist shall not order an oral decongestant for use by a patient with coronary artery disease, angina, 

hyperthyroidism, diabetes, glaucoma, prostate conditions, hypertension, or a patient currently using a monoamine oxidase inhibitor. 
1. Phenylephrine. 
2. Azatadine. 
(6) Topical antifungal/antibacterials. The pharmacist shall warn the patient that any of the products should not be used near deep 

or puncture wounds and contact with eyes or mucous membranes should be avoided. Iodochlorhydroxyquin preparations shall be 
labeled with staining potential. 

(a) lodochiorhydroxyquin with 0.5% Hydrocortisone (not exceeding 20 grams). 
(b) Haloprogin 1%. 

(c) Clotrimazole topical cream and lotion. 
(d) Erythromycin topical. 
(7) Topical anti-inflammatory. The pharmacist shall warn the patient that hydrocortisone should not be used on bacterial 

infections, viral infections, fungal infections, or by patients with impaired circulation. The prescription shall be labeled to advise the 

patient to avoid contact with eyes, mucous membranes or broken skin. Preparations containing hydrocortisone not exceeding 2.5%. 
(8) Otic antifungal/antibacterial. Acetic acid 2% in aluminum acetate solution which shall be labeled for use in ears only. 

(9) Keratolytics. Salicylic acid 16.7% and lactic acid 16.7% in flexible collodion, to be applied to warts, except for patients 
under two (2) years of age, and those with diabetes or impaired circulation. Prescriptions shall be labeled to avoid contact with 
normal skin, eyes and mucous membranes. 

(10) Vitamins with fluoride. (This does not include vitamins with folic acid in excess of 0.9 mg.) 
(11) Medicinal drug shampoos containing Lindane. The pharmacist shall: 
(a) Limit the order to the treatment of head lice only; 

(b) Order no more than four (4) ounces per person; and 
(c) Provide the patient with the appropriate instructions and precautions for use. 



(12) Ophthalmics. Naphazoline 0.1% ophthalmic solution. 
(13) Histamine H2 antagonists. The pharrmacist shall advise the patient to seek medical attention if symptom persist longer than 

14 days while using the medication or if stools darken or contain blood. 
(a) Cimetidine. 
(b) Famotidine. 
(c) Ranitidine HC 1. 

(14) Acne products. Benzoyl Peroxide. The prescription shall be labeled to advise the patient to avoid use on the eye, eyelid, or 
mucous membranes. 

(15) Topical Antiviral. 
(a) Acyclovir ointment may be ordered for the treatment of herpes simplex infections of the lips. 
(b) Penciclovir. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Amended 10-7-90, Formerly 21S-18.003, Amended 7- 

30-91, Formerly 21S-27.220, 61F10-27.220, Amended 3-12-9 7, Formerly 59X-27.220, Amended 6-15-98, 11-30-99, 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.230 Fluoride Containing Products That May Be Ordered by Pharmacists. 
Oral medicinal drug products containing fluoride may be ordered by pharmacists for their patients who do not have fluoride 
supplement in their drinking water, pursuant to the following limitations: 

(1) The fluoride content of drinking water does not exceed 0.5 ppm. 
(2) Once a fluoride treatment has been initiated with one specific fluoride medicinal drug product it should not be interchanged 

with a product of a different manufacturer for the course of the treatment. 
(3) If the fluoride content is less than 0.5 ppm then the following dosage schedule for oral usage shall be followed. 
(a)1. For ages 0-6 months. 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water no supplementation, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water no supplementation, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation, 
2. For ages 6 months 3 years, 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water supplement with 0.25 mg. F/day, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water no supplementation, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation. 
3. For ages 3-6 years. 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water supplement with 0.5 mg. F/day, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water supplement with 0.25 mg. F/day, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation. 
4. For ages 6-16 years. 
a. Less than 0.3 ppm in water supplement with 1.00 mg. F/day, 
b. 0.3-0.6 ppm in water supplement with 0.5 mg. F/day, 
c. 0.6 ppm in water no supplementation. 
(b) No more than 264 mg. of sodium fluoride may be dispensed at any one time to a patient. 
(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 64B16-27.210(3), F.A.C., a pharmacist may continue a course of therapy with 

fluoride products until appropriate referral to another health care practitioner is indicated or in no event shall the course of therapy 
be more than one (1) year. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.186(2) FS. Law Implemented 465.186 FS. History—New 5-1-86, Formerly 21S-18.004, 21S-27.230, 61F10-27.230, 59X- 

2 7.230, Amended 6-15-98. 

64B16-27.300 Standards of Practice - Continuous Quality Improvement Program. 
(1) "Continuous Quality Improvement Program" means a system of standards and procedures to identify and evaluate quality- 

related events and improve patient care. 

(2) "Quality-Related Event" means the inappropriate dispensing or administration of a prescribed medication including: 
(a) A variation from the prescriber's prescription order, including, but not limited to: 



1. Incorrect drug; 

2. Incorrect drug strength; 
3. Incorrect dosage form; 
4. Incorrect patient; or 
5. Inadequate or incorrect packaging, labeling, or directions. 
(b) A failure to identify and manage: 
1. Over-utilization or under-utilization; 
2. Therapeutic duplication; 
3. Drug-disease contraindications; 
4. Drug-drug interactions; 
5. Incorrect drug dosage or duration of drug treatment; 
6. Drug-allergy interactions; or 
7. Clinical abuse/misuse. 
(3)(a) Each pharmacy shall establish a Continuous Quality Improvement Program which program shall be described in the 

pharmacy's policy and procedure manual and, at a minimum shall contain: 
1. Provisions for a Continuous Quality Improvement Committee that may be comprised of staff members of the pharmacy, 

including pharmacists, registered pharmacy interns, registered pharmacy technicians, clerical staff, and other personnel deemed 
necessary by the prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record; 

2. Provisions for the prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record to ensure that the committee 
conducts a review of Quality Related Events at least every three months. 

3. A planned process to record, measure, assess, and improve the quality of patient care; and 
4. The procedure for reviewing Quality Related Events. 
(b) As a component of its Continuous Quality Improvement Program, each pharmacy shall assure that, following a Quality- 

Related Event, all reasonably necessary steps have been taken to remedy any problem for the patient. 
(c) At a minimum, the review shall consider the effects on quality of the pharmacy system due to staffing levels, workflow, and 

technological support. 
(4) Each Quality-Related Event that occurs, or is alleged to have occurred, as the result of activities in a pharmacy, shall be 

documented in a written record or computer database created solely for that purpose. The Quality-Related Event shall be initially 
documented by the pharmacist to whom it is described, and it shall be recorded on the same day of its having been described to the 
pharmacist. Documentation of a Quality-Related Event shall include a description of the event that is sufficient to permit 
categorization and analysis of the event. Pharmacists shall maintain such records at least until the event has been considered by the 
committee and incorporated in the summary required in subsection (5) below. 

(5) Records maintained as a component of a pharmacy Continuous Quality Improvement Program are confidential under the 

provisions of Section 766.101, F.S. In order to determine compliance the Department may review the policy and procedures and a 

Summarization of Quality-Related Events. The summarization document shall analyze remedial measures undertaken following a 

Quality-Related Event. No patient name or employee name shall be included in this summarization. The summarization shall be 
maintained for two years. Records are considered peer-review documents and are not subject to discovery in civil litigation or 
administrative actions. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 7-15-99, Amended 1-2-02, 6-16-03, 11-18-0 7, 1-1-10. 

64B16-27.400 Practice of Pharmacy. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 1) (b), (13), 465.014, 465.026 FS. History—New 2-14-77, Formerly 21S- 

4.01, 21S-4.001, Amended 7-30-91, Formerly 21S-27.400, 61F10-27.400, Amended 1-30-96, 10-1 -96, Formerly 59X-27.400, Amended 4-13-00, 

Repealed 10-5 -09. 

64B16-27.410 Registered Pharmacy Technician, to Pharmacist Ratio. 
(1) Registered pharmacy technicians may assist a pharmacist in performing professional services within a pharmacy 

environment provided that no pharmacist shall supervise more than one registered pharmacy technician unless otherwise permitted 
by the Florida Board of Pharmacy. A pharmacist's supervision of a registered pharmacy technician in a working environment 



requires that a registered pharmacy technician be under the direct personal supervision of a pharmacist. 
(2) The prescription department manager or consultant pharmacist of record is required to submit a written request and receive 

approval prior to the pharmacy's allowing a pharmacist to supervise more than one registered pharmacy technician as permitted by 
law. Such requests shall be reviewed and pre-approved by Board staff according to the guidelines adopted herein, and submitted to 

the Board for ratification. 
(3) The request to practice with a ratio greater than 1:1 shall include a brief description of the workflow needs that justify the 

ratio request. The brief description of workflow needs shall include the operating hours of the pharmacy, number of pharmacists, 
registered interns, and registered pharmacy technicians employed. 

(4) A pharmacy that employs pharmacy technicians shall meet the following conditions: 
(a) Establish written job descriptions, task protocols, and policies and procedures that pertain to duties performed by the 

registered pharmacy technician and provide this information to the Board upon request; 
(b) Establish that each registered pharmacy technician is knowledgeable in the established job descriptions, task protocols, and 

policy and procedures in the pharmacy setting in which the technician is to perform his or her duties; 
(c) Ensure that the duties assigned to any registered pharmacy technician do not exceed the established job descriptions, task 

protocols, and policy and procedures, nor involve any of the prohibited tasks in Rule 64B16-27.420, F.A.C.; or 
(d) Ensure that each registered pharmacy technician receives employer-based or on-the-job training in order for the registered 

pharmacy technician to assume his or her responsibilities and maintain documentation of the training. 

(5) The pharmacy shall maintain a policy and procedure manual with regard to registered pharmacy technicians which shall 
include the following: 

(a) Supervision by a pharmacist; 
(b) Minimum qualifications as established by law; 

(c) Documentation of in-service education and/or on-going training and demonstration of competency, specific to practice site 

and job function; 
(d) General duties and responsibilities of registered pharmacy technicians; 
(e) Retrieval of prescription files, patient files, patient profile information and other records pertaining to the practice of 

pharmacy; 
(f) All functions related to prescription processing; 
(g) All functions related to prescription legend drug and controlled substance ordering and inventory control, including 

procedures for documentation and recordkeeping; 
(h) rescription refill and renewal authorization; 
(i) Registered pharmacy technician ffinctions related to automated pharmacy systems; and 
(j) Continuous quality improvement program. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.014, 893.07(1)(b) FS. History—New 2-14-77, Amended 3-31-81, Formerly 21S-4.02, 

Amended 8-31-87, Formerly 21S-4.002, Amended 9-9-92, Formerly 21S-27.410, 61F10-27.410, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-27.410, 

Amended 2-23-98, 10-15-01, 1-1-10. 



64B16-27.420 Registered Pharmacy Technician Responsibilities. 
(1) Registered pharmacy technicians may assist the pharmacist in performing the following tasks: 
(a) Retrieval of prescription files, patient files and profiles and other such records pertaining to the practice of pharmacy; 
(b) Data Entry; 
(c) Label preparation; 
(d) The counting, weighing, measuring, pouring and mixing of prescription medication or stock legend drugs and controlled 

substances, including the filling of an automated medication system; 
(e) Initiate communication to a prescribing practitioner or their medical staffs (or agents) regarding patient prescription refill 

authorization requests. For the purposes of this section "prescription refill" means the dispensing of medications pursuant to a 

prescriber's authorization provided on the original prescription; 
(f) Initiate communication to confirm the patient's name, medication, strength, quantity, directions and date of last refill; 

(g) Initiate conmiunication to a prescribing practitioner or their medical staff (or agents) to obtain clarification on missing or 
illegible dates, prescriber name, brand/generic preference, quantity, DEA registration number or license numbers; and 

(h) May accept authorization for a prescription renewal. For the purposes of this section, "prescription renewal" means the 

dispensing of medications pursuant to a practitioner's authorization to fill an existing prescription that has no refill remaining. 
(2) Registered Pharmacy technicians shall not: 

(a) Receive new verbal prescriptions or any change in the medication, strength or directions; 
(b) Interpret a prescription or medication order for therapeutic acceptability and appropriateness; 
(c) Conduct a final verification of dosage and directions; 
(d) Engage in prospective drug review; 
(e) Provide patient counseling; 
(f) Monitor prescription usage; and 

(g) Override clinical alerts without first notifying the pharmacist. 
(3) Nuclear pharmacy permits allow the registered pharmacy technician to receive diagnostic orders only. The pharmacist must 

receive therapy or blood product procedure orders. 
(4)(a) All registered pharmacy technicians shall identify themselves as registered pharmacy technicians by wearing a type of 

identification badge that is clearly visible which specifically identifies the employee by name and by status as a "registered 
pharmacy technician"; and 

(b) All registered pharmacy technicians shall state their names and verbally identify themselves as registered pharmacy 
technicians in the context of telephone or other forms of communication. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.014 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 8-31-8 7, Formerly 21S-4.0025, Amended 7-30-91, 

Formerly 21S-27.420, 61F10-27.420, 59X-27.420, Amended 2-23-98, 1-1-10, 8-26-12. 

64B16-27.430 Responsibilities of the Pharmacist. 
The delegation of any duties, tasks or functions to registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians must be 
performed subject to a continuing review and ultimate supervision of the pharmacist who instigated the specific task, so that a 

continuity of supervised activity is present between one (1) pharmacist and one (1) registered pharmacy technician. In every 
pharmacy, the licensed pharmacist shall retain the professional and personal responsibility for any delegated act performed by 
registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians in his employ and under his supervision. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 2-14-77, Formerly 21S-4.03, Amended 9-1-87, Formerly 21S- 

4.003, 21S-2 7.430, 61F10-27.430, 59X-27.430, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-27.440 Policies and Procedures. 
Any pharmacy utilizing registered pharmacy technicians shall be required to have written policies and procedures regarding the 
number of positions and their utilization, including the specific scope of responsibilities of technicians, available for inspection by 
the Florida Board of Pharmacy or its authorized agents and representatives. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.014 FS. History—New 2-14-77, Formerly 21S-4.04, 21S-4.004, Amended 9-9-92, 

Formerly 21S-27.440, 61F10-27.440, 59X-27.440, Amended 1-1-10. 



64B16-27.500 Negative Drug Formulary. 
The negative drug formulary is composed of medicinal drugs which have been specifically determined by the Board of Pharmacy 
and the Board of Medicine to demonstrate clinically significant biological or therapeutic inequivalence and which, if substituted, 
could produce adverse clinical effects, or could otherwise pose a threat to the health and safety of patients receiving such 
prescription medications. Except where certain dosage forms are included on the negative drug formulary as a class, all medicinal 
drugs are listed by their official United States Pharmacopoeia Non-Proprietary (generic) name. The generic name of a drug shall be 
applicable to and include all brand-name equivalents of such drug for which a prescriber may write a prescription. Substitution by a 

dispensing pharmacist on a prescription written for any brand name equivalent of a generic named drug product listed on the 
negative formulary or for a drug within the class of certain dosage forms as listed, is strictly prohibited. In cases where the 
prescription is written for a drug listed on the negative drug formulary but a brand name equivalent is not specified by the prescriber, 
the drug dispensed must be one obtained from a manufacturer or distributor holding an approved new drug application or 
abbreviated new drug application issued by the Food and Drug Administration, United States Department of Health and Welfare 
permitting that manufacturer or distributor to market those medicinal drugs or when the former is non-applicable, those 
manufacturers or distributors supplying such medicinal drugs must show compliance with other applicable Federal Food and Drug 
Administration marketing requirements. The following are included on the negative drug formulary: 

(1) Digitoxin. 
(2) Conjugated Estrogen. 
(3) Dicumarol. 
(4) Chlorpromazine (Solid Oral Dosage Forms). 
(5) Theophylline (Controlled Release). 
(6) Pancrelipase (Oral Dosage Forms). 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.025(6) FS., Ch. 200 1-146, Laws of Florida. Law Implemented 465.025(6) FS., Ch. 2001-146, Laws of Florida. 

History—New 12-14-76, Amended 3-17-77, 7-2-79, 4-9-81, 9-14-82, 9-26-84, Formerly 21S-5.01, Amended 3-30-89, 7-1-90, Formerly 21S-5.001, 

Amended 12-25-90, 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-27.500, Amended 2-21-94, Formerly 61F10-27.500, 59X-27.500, Amended 12-4 -01, 3-18-10. 

64B16-27.51O Identification of Manufacturer. 
Each formulary of generic and brand name drug products established by each community pharmacy pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 465.025, F.S., shall include the name of the manufacturer of the generic drug listed in said formulary. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.025 FS. History—New 3-16-77, Formerly 21S-5.02, 21S-5.002, 21S-27.510, 61F10- 

27.510, 59X-27.510. 

64B16-27.520 Positive Drug Formulary. 
A positive formulary of generic and brand name drug products is required of each community pharmacy pursuant to subsection 
465.025(5), F.S. Those medicinal drugs on the positive formulary shall be obtained from manufacturers or distributors holding an 

approved new drug application or abbreviated new drug application issued by the Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Department 
of Health, Education and Welfare permitting that manufacturer or distributor to market those medicinal drugs or when the former is 

non-applicable, those manufacturers or distributors supplying those medicinal drugs must show compliance with other applicable 
Federal Food and Drug Administration marketing requirements. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.025(6) FS. History—New 12-7-77, Formerly 21S-5.03, 21S-5.003, 21S-27.520, 61F10- 

2 7.520, 59X-27.520. 



64B16-27.530 Duty of Pharmacist to Inform Regarding Drug Substitution. 
Prior to the delivery of the prescription, a pharmacist must inform the person presenting a prescription of any substitution of a 

generic drug product for a brand name drug product, of any retail price difference between the two, and of the person's right to 

refuse the substitution. This information must be communicated at a meaningful time such as to allow the person to make an 
informed choice as to whether to exercise the option to refuse substitution without undue inconvenience to the presenter of the 
prescription or to the consumer of the drug. This information shall be communicated to the person presenting the prescription in a 

manner determined to be appropriate by the pharmacist using professional discretion and judgment. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.025(3) (a) FS. History—New 11-10-80, Formerly 21S-5. 04, 21S-5. 004, 21S-2 7.530, 

61F10-2 7.530, 59X-27.530, Amended 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.615 Possession and Disposition of Sample Medicinal Drugs. 
(1) Pharmacies may not be in possession of sample medicinal drugs except: 
(a) Pharmacies may possess the sample medicinal drugs that are listed within Rule 64B16-27.220, F.A.C., Medicinal Drugs 

That May be Ordered by Pharmacists. 
(b) Institutional pharmacies may possess sample medicinal drugs upon the written request of the prescribing practitioner. Such 

possession must be in accordance with the provisions of Section 499.028(3)(e)2., F.S. 

(c) Those community pharmacies that are pharmacies of health care entities, as defined by Sections 499.003(3) and (14), F.S., 
may possess sample medicinal drugs upon the written request of the prescribing practitioner. Such possession must be in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 499.028(3)(e)2., F.S. 

(2) Sample packages of medicinal drugs that are found to be unsuitable for dispensing by reason of physical condition or failure 
to meet requirements of state or federal law shall be returned to the company of origin in accordance with the requirements of 
Chapter 499, F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 499.028 FS. Law Implemented 465.018, 465.019, 465.022, 465.186, 499.028 FS. History—New 11-4-93, 

Formerly 61F10-2 7.615, 59X-27. 615, Amended 11-18-07. 

64B16-27.620 Disposition of Complimentary or Sample Medicinal Drugs Which Are Unsuitable for Dispensing. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 499.028 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 12-26-79, Formerly 21S-15.03, 21S-15.003, 

21S-27. 620, Amended 11-4-93, Formerly 61F1 0-27.620, 59X-27. 620, Repealed 10-5 -09. 

64B16-27.700 Definition of Compounding. 
"Compounding" is the professional act by a pharmacist or other practitioner authorized by law, employing the science or art of any 
branch of the profession of pharmacy, incorporating ingredients to create a finished product for dispensing to a patient or for 
administration by a practitioner or the practitioner's agent; and shall specifically include the professional act of preparing a unique 
finished product containing any ingredient or device defined by Sections 465.003(7) and (8), F.S. The term also includes the 
preparation of nuclear pharmaceuticals and diagnostic kits incident to use of such nuclear pharmaceuticals. The term "commercially 
available products," as used in this section, means any medicinal product as defined by Sections 465.003(7) and (8), F.S., that are 
legally distributed in the State of Florida by a drug manufacturer or wholesaler. 

(1) Compounding includes: 
(a) The preparation of drugs or devices in anticipation of prescriptions based on routine, regularly observed prescribing patterns. 
(b) The preparation pursuant to a prescription of drugs or devices which are not commercially available. 
(c) The preparation of commercially available products from bulk when the prescribing practitioner has prescribed the 

compounded product on a per prescription basis and the patient has been made aware that the compounded product will be prepared 
by the pharmacist. The reconstitution of commercially available products pursuant to the manufacturer's guidelines is permissible 
without notice to the practitioner. 

(2) The preparation of drugs or devices for sale or transfer to pharmacies, practitioners, or entities for purposes of dispensing or 
distribution is not compounding and is not within the practice of the profession of pharmacy. Except that the supply of patient 
specific compounded prescriptions to another pharmacy under the provisions of Section 465.0265, F.S., and Rule 64B16-28.450, 
F.A.C., is authorized. 



(3) Office use compounding, "Office use" means the provision and administration of a compounded drug to a patient by a 

practitioner in the practitioner's office or by the practitioner in a health care facility or treatment setting, including a hospital, 
ambulatory surgical center, or pharmacy. A pharmacist may dispense and deliver a quantity of a compounded drug to a practitioner 
for office use by the practitioner in accordance with this section provided: 

(a) The quantity of compounded drug does not exceed the amount a practitioner anticipates may be used in the practitioner's 
office before the expiration date of the drug; 

(b) The quantity of compounded drug is reasonable considering the intended use of the compounded drug and the nature of the 
practitioner's practice; 

(c) The quantity of compounded drug for any practitioner and all practitioners as a whole, is not greater than an amount the 
pharmacy is capable of compounding in compliance with pharmaceutical standards for identity, strength, quality, and purity of the 
compounded drug that are consistent with United States Pharmacopoeia guidelines and accreditation practices. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 2), 465.0155, 465.0265 FS. History—New 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-27. 700, 61F10- 

27.700, 59X-27.700, Amended 11-2-03, 10-7-08. 

64B16-27.797 Standards of Practice for Compounding Sterile Preparations (CSPs). 
The purpose of this section is to assure positive patient outcomes through the provision of standards for 1) pharmaceutical care; 2) 

the preparation, labeling, and distribution of sterile pharmaceuticals by pharmacies, pursuant to or in anticipation of a prescription 
drug order, and 3) product quality and characteristics. These standards are intended to apply to all sterile pharmaceuticals, 
notwithstanding the location of the patient (e.g., home, hospital, nursing home, hospice, doctor's office). 

(1) Definitions: 
(a) "Anteroom" means an area where personnel perform hand hygiene and garbing procedures, staging of components, order 

entry, CSP labeling, and other high-particulate generating activities. It is also a transition area that provides assurance that pressure 
relationships are constantly maintained so that air flows from clean to dirty areas. The Anteroom area is to be maintained within ISO 
Class 8 level of particulate contamination. 

(b) "Antineoplastic" means a pharmaceutical agent that has the intent of causing cell death targeted to cancer cells, metastatic 
cells, or other cells involved in a severe inflammatory or autoimmune response. 

(c) "Beyond-use-date" means the date after which a compounded preparation should not be used and is determined from the 
date the preparation was compounded. 

(d) "Biological safety cabinet" means a containment unit suitable for the preparation of low, moderate, and high risk agents 
where there is a need for protection of the product, personnel, and environment. 

(e) "Bulk Compounding" means the compounding of CSPs in increments of twenty-five (25) or more doses from a single 
source. 

(0 "Buffer area" (Clean room) is an area where the activities of CSP take place; it shall not contain sinks or drains. In High- 
Risk compounding this must be a separate room. The Buffer area is to be maintained within ISO Class 7 level of particulate 
contamination. 

(g) "Class 100 environment" means an atmospheric environment which contains no more than one hundred particles of 0.5 

microns in diameter or larger per cubic foot of air. A class 100 environment is equivalent to ISO Class 5 level of particulate 
contamination. 

(h) "Compounding Aseptic Isolator" (CAT) is a form of barrier isolator specifically designed for compounding pharmaceutical 
ingredients or preparations. It is designed to maintain an aseptic compounding environment within the isolator throughout the 
compounding and material transfer process. Air exchange into the isolator from the surrounding environment should not occur 
unless it is first passed through a microbially retentive filter (HEPA minimum 0.2 microns). 

(i) "High-Risk Level CSPs" are products compounded under any of the following conditions are either non-sterile or at high 
risk to become non-sterile with infectious microorganisms. 

1. Non-sterile ingredients, including manufactured products for routes of administration other than sterile parenteral 
administration are incorporated or a non-sterile device is employed before terminal sterilization. 

2. Sterile contents of commercially manufactured products, CSP that lack effective antimicrobial preservatives, sterile surfaces 
of devices and containers for the preparation, transfer, sterilization, and packaging of CSPs are exposed to air quality worse than ISO 
Class 5 for more than one (1) hour. 



3. Before sterilization, non-sterile procedures such as weighing and mixing are conducted in air quality worse than ISO Class 7, 

compounding personnel are improperly garbed and gloved, or water-containing preparations are stored for more than 6 hours. 
4. For properly stored sterilized high-risk preparation, in the absence of passing a sterility test, the storage periods cannot exceed 

the following time periods: before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 24 hours at controlled 
room temperature, and for not more than 3 days at a cold temperature (2-8 degrees Celsius) and for not more than 45 days in solid 
frozen state at -20 degrees celsius or colder. 

5. Examples of high-risk compounding include: (1) dissolving non-sterile bulk drug and nutrient powders to make solutions, 
which will be terminally sterilized; (2) exposing the sterile ingredients and components used to prepare and package CSPs to room 
air quality worse than ISO Class 5 for more than one (1) hour; (3) measuring and mixing sterile ingredients in non-sterile devices 
before sterilization is performed; (4) assuming, without appropriate evidence or direct determination, that packages of bulk 
ingredients contain at least 95% by weight of their active chemical moiety and have not been contaminated or adulterated between 
uses. 

6. All high risk category products must be rendered sterile by heat sterilization, gas sterilization, or filtration sterilization in 

order to become a CSP. 

7. Quality assurance practices for high-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level CSPs. In addition, each person 
authorized to compound high-risk level CSPs demonstrates competency by completing a media-filled test that represents high-level 
compounding semiannually. 

(j) Immediate Use CSPs: 
1. Requires only simple aseptic measuring and transfer manipulations are performed with not more than three (3) sterile non- 

hazardous drug or diagnostic radiopharmaceutical drug preparations, including an infusion or dilution solution. 
2. The preparation procedure occurs continuously without delays or interruptions and does not exceed 1 hour. 
3. At no point during preparation and prior to administration are critical surfaces and ingredients of the CSP directly exposed to 

contact contamination such as human touch, cosmetic flakes or particulates, blood, human body substances (excretions and 
secretions, e.g., nasal or oral) and non-sterile inanimate sources. 

4. Administration begins not later than one (1) hour following the start of preparing the CSP. 

5. When the CSP is not administered by the person who prepared it, or its administration is not witnessed by the person who 

prepared it, the CSP container shall bear a label listing patient identification information (name, identification numbers), and the 
names and amounts of all active ingredients, and the name or identifiable initials of the person who prepared the CSP, and one (1) 

hour beyond-use time and date. 

6. If administration has not begun within one (1) hour following the start of preparing the CSP, the CSP is promptly and safely 
discarded. Immediate use CSPs shall not be stored for later use. 

(k) ISO Class 5 guidelines are met when particulate contamination is measured at "not more than 3,520 particles 0.5 micron size 

or larger per cubic meter of air for any lamiar airflow workbench (LAWF), BSC, or !. (Also referred to as a "Class 100 

environment.") 
(1) ISO Class 7 guidelines are met when particulate contamination is measured at "not more than 352,000 particles 0.5 micron 

size or larger per cubic meter of air for any buffer area (room)." 
(m) ISO Class 8 guidelines are met when particulate contamination is measured at "not more than 3,520,000 particles 0.5 

micron size or larger per cubic meter of air for any anteroom (area)." 
(n) Low-Risk Level CSPs compounded under all of the following are at a low risk of contamination: 
1. The CSPs are compounded with aseptic manipulations entirely within ISO Class 5 (class 100) or better air quality using only 

sterile ingredients, products, components, and devices. 
2. The compounding involves only transfer, measuring, and mixing manipulations using no more than three commercially 

manufactured sterile products and entries into one container (e.g., bag, vial) of sterile product to make the CSP. 
3. Manipulations are limited to aseptically opening ampoules, penetrating sterile stoppers on vials with sterile needles and 

syringes, and transferring sterile liquids in sterile syringes to sterile administration devices, package containers for storage and 
dispensing. The contents of ampoules shall be passed through a sterile filter to remove any particles. 

4. For low-risk preparation, in the absence of passing a sterility test or a documented validated process, the storage periods 
cannot exceed the following time periods; before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 48 



hours at controlled room temperature, and for not more than 14 days at a cold temperature (2-8 degrees celsius) and for 45 days in 
solid frozen state at -20 degrees celsius or colder. 

5. Quality Assurance practices include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) routine disinfection and air quality testing of the 
direct compounding environment to minimize microbial surface contamination and maintain ISO Class 5 air quality; (2) Visual 
confirmation that compounding personnel are properly donning and wearing appropriate items and types of protective garments; (3) 

Review of all orders and packages of ingredients to ensure that the correct identity and amounts of ingredients were compounded; 
(4) Visual inspection of CSPs to ensure the absence of particulate matter in solutions, the absence of leakage from vials and bags, 
and accuracy and thoroughness of labeling. 

6. All compounding personnel are required to demonstrate competency by completing a media-filled test that represents low- 
level compounding annually. A media-filled test is a commercially available sterile fluid culture media that shall be able to promote 
exponential colonization of bacteria that are both likely to be transmitted to CSP from the compounding personnel and environment. 
Media filled vials are incubated at 25-3 5 degrees celsius for 14 days. Failure is indicated by visible turbidity in the medium on or 
before 14 days. 

(o) Medium-Risk Level CSPs When CSPs are compounded aseptically under Low-Risk Conditions, and one or more of the 

following conditions exist, such CSPs are at a medium risk of contamination: 
1. CSPs containing more than three (3) commercial sterile drug products and those requiring complex manipulations and/or 

preparation methods. 
2. Multiple individual or small doses of sterile products are combined or pooled to prepare a CSP that will be administered 

either to multiple patients or to one patient on multiple occasions. 
3. The compounding process requires unusually long duration, such as that required to complete dissolution or homogeneous 

mixing. 
4. For Medium-risk preparation, in the absence of passing a sterility test or a documented validated process, the storage periods 

cannot exceed the following time periods; before administration, the CSPs are properly stored and exposed for not more than 30 

hours at controlled room temperature, and for not more than 9 days at a cold temperature and for 45 days in solid frozen state at -20 

degrees celsius or colder. 
5. These include compounding of total parenteral nutrition (TPN) using either manual or automated devices during which there 

are multiple injections, detachments, and attachments of nutrient source products to the device or machine to deliver all nutritional 
components to a final sterile container. 

6. Filling of reservoirs of injection and infttsion devices with more than three (3) sterile drug products and evacuation of air 
from those reservoirs before the filled devices are dispensed. 

7. Transfer of volumes from multiple ampules or vials into one or more final sterile containers. 
8. Quality assurance practices for medium-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level CSPs. 

9. Demonstrates competency by completing a media-filled test that represents medium-level compounding annually. 
(p) Parenteral means a sterile preparation of drugs for injection through one or more layers of the skin. 

(q) Risk level of the sterile preparation means the level assigned to a sterile product by a pharmacist that represents the 

probability that the sterile product will be contaminated with microbial organisms, spores, endotoxins, foreign chemicals or other 
physical matter. 

(r) Sterile preparation means any dosage form devoid of viable microorganisms, including but not limited to, parenterals, 
injectables, ophthalmics, and aqueous inhalant solutions for respiratory treatments. 

(2) Compounded sterile preparations include, but are not limited, to the following: 
(a) Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN) solutions; 
(b) Parenteral analgesic drugs; 
(c) Parenteral antibiotics; 
(d) Parenteral antineoplastic agents; 
(e) Parenteral electrolytes; 
(f) Parenteral vitamins; 
(g) Irrigating fluids; 
(h) Ophthalmic preparations; and 
(i) Aqueous inhalant solutions for respiratory treatments. 



(3) Sterile preparations shall not include commercially manufactured products that do not require compounding prior to 

dispensing. 
(4) Policy & Procedure Manual. A policy and procedure manual shall be prepared and maintained for the compounding, 

dispensing, and delivery of sterile preparation prescriptions. The policy and procedure manual shall be available for inspection by 
the Department and include at a minimum: 

(a) Use of single dose and multiple dose containers not to exceed United States Pharmacopeia 797 guidelines. 
(b) Verification of compounding accuracy and sterility. 
(c) Personnel training and evaluation in aseptic manipulation skills. 

(d) Environmental quality and control: 
1. Air particle monitoring for hoods (or Barrier Isolator), clean room and buffer area (or anteroom) when applicable; 
2. Unidirectional airflow (pressure differential monitoring); 
3. Cleaning and disinfecting the sterile compounding areas; 
4. Personnel cleansing and garbing; 
5. Environmental monitoring (air and surfaces). 
(e) Personnel monitoring and validation. 
(f) Finished product checks and tests. 

(g) Method to identifSi and verify ingredients used in compounding. 
(h) Labeling requirements for bulk compounded products: 
1. Contents; 
2. Beyond-Use-Date; and 
3. Storage requirements. 
(i) Packing, storage, and transportation conditions. 
(5) Physical Requirements. 
(a) The pharmacy shall have a designated area with entry restricted to designated personnel for preparing parenteral products. 

This area shall have a specified ante area and buffer area; in high risk compounding, this shall be separate rooms. This area shall be 
structurally isolated from other areas with restricted entry or access, and must be designed to avoid unnecessary traffic and 
interference with unidirectional airflow. It shall be used only for the preparation of these sterile preparations. It shall be of sufficient 
size to accommodate a laminar airflow hood and to provide for the proper storage of drugs and supplies under appropriate conditions 
of temperature, light, moisture, sanitation, ventilation, and security. 

(b) The pharmacy compounding parenteral and sterile preparation shall have the following: 
1. Appropriate environmental control devices capable of maintaining at least class 100 conditions in the work place where 

critical objects are exposed and critical activities are performed; ffirthermore, these devices must be capable of maintaining class 100 

conditions during normal activity. Examples of appropriate devices include laminar airflow hoods and zonal laminar flow of high 
efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filtered air; 

2. Appropriate disposal containers for used needles, syringes, and if applicable, for antineoplastic waste from the preparation of 
chemotherapy agents; 

3. Appropriate environmental control including approved biohazard cabinetry when antineoplastic drug products are prepared; 
4. Appropriate temperature and transport containers; 
S. Inftision devices and equipment, if appropriate. 
(c) The pharmacy shall maintain and use supplies adequate to preserve an environment suitable for the aseptic preparation of 

sterile preparations, such as: 

1. Gloves, masks, shoe covers, head and facial hair covers, and non-shedding gowns; 
2. Needles and syringes of various standard sizes; 

3. Disinfectant cleaning agents; 
4. Clean towels; 
5. Hand washing materials with bactericidal properties; 
6. Vacuum containers and various transfer sets; 

7. "Spill kits" for antineoplastic agent spills. 

(d) The pharmacy should have current reference material in hard copy or readily available on line: 



1. USP Pharmacist Pharmacopeia (optional) or Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Society of Hospital Pharmacists; or 
other nationally recognized standard reference; and 

2. "Practice Guidelines for Personnel Dealing with Cytotoxic Drugs," or other nationally recognized standard cytotoxic 
reference if applicable. 

(e) Barrier isolator is exempt from all physical requirements subject to manufacturer guidelines for proper placement. 
(6) Antineoplastic Drugs. The following requirements are necessary for those pharmacies that prepare antineoplastic drugs to 

ensure the protection of the personnel involved: 
(a) All antineoplastic drugs shall be compounded in a vertical flow, Class II, biological safety cabinet placed in negative 

pressure room unless using barrier isolators. Other preparations shall not be compounded in this cabinet. 
(b) Protective apparel shall be worn by personnel compounding antineoplastic drugs. This shall include at least gloves and 

gowns with tight cuffs. 

(c) Appropriate safety and containment techniques for compounding antineoplastic drugs shall be used in conjunction with the 
aseptic techniques required for preparing sterile products. 

(d) Disposal of antineoplastic waste shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal requirements. 
(e) Written procedures for handling both major and minor spills of antineoplastic agents shall be developed and shall be 

included in the policy and procedure manual. 
(f) Prepared doses of antineoplastic drugs shall be dispensed, labeled with proper precautions inside and outside, and shipped in 

a manner to minimize the risk of accidental rupture of the primary container. 
(7) Quality Assurance: 
(a) There shall be a documented, ongoing quality assurance control program that monitors personnel performance, equipment, 

and preparations. Appropriate samples of finished preparations shall be examined to assure that the pharmacy is capable of 
consistently preparing sterile preparations meeting specifications: 

1. All clean rooms and laminar flow hoods shall be certified by an independent contractor or National Sanitation Foundation 
Standard 49, for operational efficiency at least semiannually for high risk CSPs and annually for low and medium risk CSPs or any 
time the hood is relocated or the structure is altered and records shall be maintained for two years. 

2. There shall be written procedures developed requiring sampling if microbial contamination is suspected for batches greater 
than 25 units. 

3. High risk greater than 25 units have antimicrobial testing prior to dispensing. 
4. There shall be referenced written justification of the chosen beyond-use-dates for compounded products. 
5. There shall be documentation of quality assurance audits at regular planned intervals, including infection control and sterile 

technique audits. 
(b) Compounding personnel shall be adequately skilled, educated, instructed, and trained to correctly perform and document the 

following activities in their sterile compounding duties: 
1. Demonstrate by observation or test a ftinctional understanding of USP Chapter 797 and definitions, to include Risk Category 

assessment; 
2. Understand the characteristics of touch contamination and airborne microbial contaminants; 
3. Perform antiseptic hand cleaning and disinfections of non-sterile compounding surfaces; 
4. Select and appropriately don protective garb; 
5. Demonstrate aseptic techniques and requirements while handling medications; 
6. Maintain and achieve sterility of CSPs in ISO Class 5 (Class 100) primary engineering devices and protect personnel and 

compounding environments from contamination by antineoplastic and chemotoxic or other hazardous drugs or substances; 
7. Manipulate sterile products aseptically, sterilize high-risk level CSPs (where applicable) and quality inspect CSPs; 
8. Identify, weigh and measure ingredients; 
9. Prepare product labeling requirements and "beyond use" requirements of product expiration; 
10. Prepare equipment and barrier requirement work requirements to maintain sterility; 
11. Prepare end point testing and demonstrated competencies for relevant risk levels; 
12. Prepare media fills to test aseptic technique. 
(8) Radiopharmaceuticals as Compounded Sterile Products 



(a) Upon release of a Positron Emission Tomography (PET) radiopharmaceutical as a finished drug product from a PET 
production facility, the fhrther manipulation, handling, or use of the product will be considered compounding and will be subject to 

the rules of this section. 
(b) Radiopharmaceuticals compounded from sterile components in closed, sterile containers and with a volume of 100 ml or less 

for single dose injection or not more than 30 ml taken from a multiple dose container, shall be designated as, and conform to, the 

standards for low risk compounding. 
(c) Radiopharmaceuticals shall be compounded using appropriately shielded vials and syringes in a properly functioning ISO 

Class 5 PEC (Primary Engineering Control), located in an ISO Class 8 or better buffer area environment in compliance with special 
handling, shielding, air flow requirements, and radiation safety programs to maintain radiation exposure as low as reasonably 
achievable. 

(d) Radiopharmaceuticals designed for multi use, compounded with Tc-99m, exposed to an ISO Class 5 environment by 
components with no direct contact contamination, may be used up until the time indicated by manufacturers recommendations. 

(e) Technetium 99/Molybdnenum 99 generator systems shall be stored and eluted in an ISO Class 8 or cleaner environment to 

permit special handling, shielding, and airflow requirements. 
(f) Manipulation of blood or blood derived products (e.g. radiolabeling white blood cells) shall be conducted in an area that is 

clearly separated from routine material handling areas and equipment, and shall be controlled by specific standard operating 
procedures to avoid cross contamination of products. The buffer area for manipulation of blood or blood derived products shall be 
maintained as an ISO 7 environment and direct manipulations shall occur in an ISO 5 PEC suitable for these products (e.g. 
biological safety cabinet). 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155, 465.022 FS. History—New 6-18-08, Amended 1-7-10. 

64B16-27.800 Requirement for Patient Records. 
(1) A patient record system shall be maintained by all pharmacies for patients to whom new or refill prescriptions are dispensed. 

The patient record system shall provide for the immediate retrieval of information necessary for the dispensing pharmacist to 

identify previously dispensed drugs at the time a new or refill prescription is presented for dispensing. The pharmacist shall ensure 
that a reasonable effort is made to obtain, record and maintain the following information: 

(a) Full name of the patient for whom the drug is intended; 
(b) Address and telephone number of the patient; 
(c) Patient's age or date of birth; 
(d) Patient's gender; 
(e) A list of all new and refill prescriptions obtained by the patient at the pharmacy maintaining the patient record during the 

two years immediately preceding the most recent entry showing the name of the drug or device, prescription number, name and 
strength of the drug, the quantity and date received, and the name of the prescriber; and 

(f) Pharmacist comments relevant to the individual's drug therapy, including any other information peculiar to the specific 
patient or drug. 

(2) The pharmacist shall ensure that a reasonable effort is made to obtain from the patient or the patient's agent and shall record 
any known allergies, drug reactions, idiosyncrasies, and chronic conditions or disease states of the patient and the identity of any 
other drugs, including over-the-counter drugs, or devices currently being used by the patient which may relate to prospective drug 
review. The pharmacist shall record any related information indicated by a licensed health care practitioner. 

(3) A patient record shall be maintained for a period of not less than two years from the date of the last entry in the profile 
record. This record may be a hard copy or a computerized form. 

(4) Patient records shall be maintained for prescriptions dispensed subsequent to the effective date of this regulation. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 8-18-93, Formerly 21S-27.800, 61F10-27.800, 59X- 

2 7.800, Amended 6-15-98. 

64B16-27.810 Prospective Drug Use Review. 
(1) A pharmacist shall review the patient record and each new and refill prescription presented for dispensing in order to 

promote therapeutic appropriateness by 
(a) Over-utilization or under-utilization; 



(b) Therapeutic duplication; 
(c) Drug-disease contraindications; 
(d) Drug-drug interactions; 
(e) Incorrect drug dosage or duration of drug treatment; 
(f) Drug-allergy interactions; 
(g) Clinical abuse/misuse. 
(2) Upon recognizing any of the above, the pharmacist shall take appropriate steps to avoid or resolve the potential problems 

which shall, if necessary, include consultation with the prescriber. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 8-18-93, Formerly 21S-27.810, 61F10-27.810, 59X- 

27.810. 

64B16-27.820 Patient Counseling. 
(1) Upon receipt of a new or refill prescription, the pharmacist shall ensure that a verbal and printed offer to counsel is made to 

the patient or the patient's agent when present. If the delivery of the drugs to the patient or the patient's agent is not made at the 
pharmacy the offer shall be in writing and shall provide for toll-free telephone access to the pharmacist. If the patient does not refhse 
such counseling, the pharmacist, or the pharmacy intern, acting under the direct and immediate personal supervision of a licensed 
pharmacist, shall review the patient's record and personally discuss matters which will enhance or optimize drug therapy with each 
patient or agent of such patient. Such discussion shall be in person, whenever practicable, or by toll-free telephonic communication 
and shall include appropriate elements of patient counseling. Such elements may include, in the professional judgment of the 
pharmacist, the following: 

(a) The name and description of the drug; 

(b) The dosage form, dose, route of administration, and duration of drug therapy; 
(c) Intended use of the drug and expected action (if indicated by the prescribing health care practitioner); 
(d) Special directions and precautions for preparation, administration, and use by the patient; 
(e) Common severe side or adverse effects or interactions and therapeutic contraindications that may be encountered, including 

their avoidance, and the action required if they occur; 

(0 Techniques for self-monitoring drug therapy; 

(g) Proper storage; 
(h) Prescription refill information; 
(i) Action to be taken in the event of a missed dose; and 
(j) Pharmacist comments relevant to the individual's drug therapy, including any other information peculiar to the specific 

patient or drug. 
(2) Patient counseling as described herein, shall not be required for inpatients of a hospital or institution where other licensed 

health care practitioners are authorized to administer the drug(s). 
(3) A pharmacist shall not be required to counsel a patient or a patient's agent when the patient or patient's agent reftises such 

consultation. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.0155 FS. History—New 8-18-93, Formerly 21S-27.820, 61F10-27.820, 59X- 

27.820. 

64B16-27.830 Standards of Practice - Drug Therapy Management. 
(1) "Prescriber Care Plan" means an individualized assessment of a patient and orders for specific drugs, laboratory tests, and 

other pharmaceutical services intended to be dispensed or executed by a pharmacist. The Prescriber Care Plan shall be written by a 

physician licensed pursuant to Chapter 458, 459, 461, or 466, F.S., or similar statutory provision in another jurisdiction, and may be 
transmitted by any means of communication. The Prescriber Care Plan shall specify the conditions under which a pharmacist shall 
order laboratory tests, interpret laboratory values ordered for a patient, execute drug therapy orders for a patient, and notify the 
physician. 

(2) "Drug Therapy Management" means any act or service by a pharmacist in compliance with orders in a Prescriber Care Plan. 
(3) A pharmacist may provide Drug Therapy Management services for a patient, incidental to the dispensing of medicinal drugs 

or as a part of consulting concerning therapeutic values of medicinal drugs or as part of managing and monitoring the patient's drug 



therapy. A pharmacist who provides Drug Therapy Management services for a patient shall comply with orders in a Prescriber Care 
Plan, insofar as they specify: 

(a) Drug therapy to be initially dispensed to the patient by the pharmacist; or 
(b) Laboratory values or tests to be ordered, monitored and interpreted by the pharmacist; or 
(c) The conditions under which the duly licensed practitioner authorizes the execution of subsequent orders concerning the drug 

therapy for the patient; or 
(d) The conditions under which the pharmacist shall contact or notify the physician. 
(4) A pharmacist who provides Drug Therapy Management services shall do so only under the auspices of a pharmacy permit 

that provides the following: 
(a) A transferable patient care record that includes: 
1. A Prescriber Care Plan that includes a section noted as "orders" from a duly licensed physician for each patient for whom a 

pharmacist provides Drug Therapy Management services; 
2. Progress notes; and 
(b) A pharmaceutical care area that is private, distinct, and partitioned from any area in which activities other than patient care 

activities occur, and in which the pharmacist and patient may sit down during the provision of Drug Therapy Management services; 
and 

(c) A continuous quality improvement program that includes standards and procedures to identify, evaluate, and constantly 
improve Drug Therapy Management services provided by a pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(13), 465.0155, 465. 022(Jftb) FS. History—New 4-4-00. 

64B16-27.831 Standards of Practice for the Dispensing of Controlled Substances for Treatment of Pain. 
(1) An order purporting to be a prescription that is not issued for a legitimate medical purpose is not a prescription and the 

pharmacist knowingly filling such a purported prescription shall be subject to penalties for violations of the law. 
(2) The following criteria shall cause a pharmacist to question whether a prescription was issued for a legitimate medical 

purpose: 
(a) Frequent loss of controlled substance medications, 
(b) Only controlled substance medications are prescribed for a patient, 
(c) One person presents controlled substance prescriptions with different patient names, 
(d) Same or similar controlled substance medication is prescribed by two or more prescribers at same time, 
(e) Patient always pays cash and always insists on brand name product. 
(3) If any of the criteria in (2) is met, the pharmacist shall: 

(a) Require that the person to whom the medication is dispensed provide picture identification and the pharmacist should 
photocopy such picture identification for the pharmacist's records. If a photocopier is not available, the pharmacist should document 
on the back of the prescription complete descriptive information from the picture identification. If the person to whom medication is 

dispensed has no picture identification, the pharmacist should confirm the person's identity and document on the back of the 

prescription complete information on which the confirmation is based. 
(b) Verify the prescription with the prescriber. A pharmacist who believes a prescription for a controlled substance medication 

to be valid, but who has not been able to verify it with the prescriber, may determine not to supply the fhll quantity and may 
dispense a partial supply, not to exceed a 72 hour supply. After verification by the prescriber, the pharmacist may dispense the 
balance of the prescription within a 72 hour time period following the initial partial filling, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

(4) Every pharmacy permit holder shall maintain a computerized record of controlled substance prescriptions dispensed. A hard 
copy printout summary of such record, covering the previous 60 day period, shall be made available within 72 hours following a 

request for it by any law enforcement personnel entitled to request such summary under authority of Section 465.017(2), F. S. Such 
summary shall include information from which it is possible to determine the volume and identity of controlled substance 
medications being dispensed under the prescription of a specific prescriber, and the volume and identity of controlled substance 
medications being dispensed to a specific patient. 

(5) Any pharmacist who has reason to believe that a prescriber of controlled substances is involved in the diversion of 
controlled substances shall report such prescriber to the Department of Health. 

(6) Any pharmacist that dispenses a controlled substance subject to the requirements of this rule when dispensed by mail shall 



be exempt from the requirements to obtain suitable identification. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155 FS. Law Implemented 456.0 72 (1) (1), 465.0155, 465.016(1)(i,), (0), 465.017(2) FS. History—New 8-29-02, 

Amended 2-24-03, 11-18-0 7. 

64B16-27.85O Standards of Practice for Orthotics and Pedorthics. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Orthosis" means a medical device used to provide support, correction, or alleviation of neuromuscular or musculoskeletal 

dysffinction, disease, injury, or deformity, but does not include the following assistive technology devices: upper extremity adaptive 
equipment used to facilitate the activities of daily living, including specialized utensils, combs, and brushes; finger splints; 
wheelchair seating and equipment that is an integral part of the wheelchair and not worn by the patient; elastic abdominal supports 
that do not have metal or plastic reinforcing stays; arch supports; nontherapeutic accommodative inlays and nontherapeutic 
accommodative footwear, regardless of method of manufacture; unmodified, over-the-counter shoes; prefabricated foot care 
products; durable medical equipment such as canes, crutches, or walkers; dental appliances; or devices implanted into the body by a 

physician. For purposes of this subsection, "accommodative" means designed with the primary goal of conforming to the 

individual's anatomy and "inlay" means any removable material upon which the foot directly rests inside the shoe and which may be 
an integral design component of the shoe. 

(b) "Orthotics" means the practice, pursuant to a licensed physician's written prescription, of evaluating, treatment formulating, 
measuring, designing, fabricating, assembling, fitting, adjusting, servicing, or providing the initial training necessary to accomplish 
the fitting of an orthosis or pedorthic device; however, the repair, replacement, adjustment, or servicing of any existing orthosis may 
be performed without an additional prescription from the patient's physician, unless the original prescription states otherwise. If a 

patient is under the care of a licensed occupational therapist or physical therapist, the pharmacist must consult with the therapist if 
the therapist has requested consultation regarding the fitting, design, or fabrication of an orthosis or regarding treatment with an 
orthosis. 

(c) "Pedorthic device" means therapeutic shoes, shoe modifications made for therapeutic purposes, prosthetic fillers of the 
forefoot, and foot orthoses for use from the ankle and below, but does not include arch supports; nontherapeutic accommodative 
inlays and nontherapeutic accommodative footwear, regardless of method of manufacture; unmodified, over-the-counter shoes; or 
prefabricated foot care products. For purposes of this subsection, "accommodative" means designed with the primary goal of 
conforming to the individual's anatomy and "inlay" means any removable material upon which the foot directly rests inside the shoe 
and which may be an integral design component of the shoe. 

(d) "Pedorthics" means the practice, pursuant to a licensed physician's written prescription, of evaluating, treatment formulating, 
measuring, designing, fabricating, assembling, fitting, adjusting, servicing, or providing the initial training necessary to accomplish 
the fitting of a pedorthic device; however, the repair, replacement, adjustment, or servicing of any existing pedorthic device may be 
performed without an additional prescription from the patient's physician, unless the original prescription states otherwise. If a 

patient is under the care of a licensed occupational therapist or physical therapist, the pharmacist must consult with the therapist if 
the therapist has requested consultation regarding the fitting, design, or fabrication of a pedorthic device or regarding treatment with 
a pedorthic device. 

(2) Pursuant to a licensed physician's written prescription, the pharmacist shall assume the responsibility for assessing the 
patient, planning the patient's treatment program, and directing the program. No pharmacist shall implement a prescription that, in 
the pharmacist's judgment, is contraindicated. No change shall be made in the prescription without the authorization of the 

prescribing physician. 
(3) The pharmacist's professional responsibilities include: 
(a) Ongoing consultation with the prescribing physician regarding information that will impact the patient's medical and 

fttnctional outcomes. 
(b) Orthotic and/or pedorthic evaluation of the patient. 
(c) Identification and documentation of precautions, special problems, or contraindications. 
(d) Development of a treatment plan including the short and long terms goals. 
(e) Implementation of a treatment plan. 
(f) Periodic review and update of the treatment plan, including reassessment of the patient in reference to goals and, when 

necessary, modification of the treatment plan. 



(g) Collaboration with members of the health care team when appropriate. 
(h) Advising the patient, in terms which the patient can understand, of the nature and purpose of the services to be rendered and 

the techniques for use and care of an orthosis or pedorthic device. 
(i) Determination of the appropriateness of proper fit and function of any orthosis or pedorthic device. 
(4) A pharmacist may delegate duties to nonlicensed supportive personnel if those duties are performed under the supervision of 

the pharmacist. In such instances the supervising pharmacist is responsible for all acts performed by such persons. It is below the 
standard of practice and prohibited for a pharmacist to delegate or assign activities, tasks or procedures that fall within the scope of 
any practice defined in Section 468.812(3), F.S., to support persoimel, without providing supervision for the performance of the 

activities, tasks or procedures. 

RulemakingAuthority 468.812(3) FS. Law Implemented 465.0155, 468.812(3) FS. History—New 5-2-07. 

64B16-27.851 Record-Keeping for Orthotics and Pedorthics. 
(1) The pharmacist or supportive personnel shall prepare and maintain in a timely manner patient records which include, at a 

minimum, the following: 
(a) The patient name, address and telephone number; 
(b) The location and dates of all treatment, evaluation or consultation; 
(c) The name of the prescribing physician; 
(d) All prescriptions pertaining to services provided to the patient; 

(e) A treatment or service plan; 
(f) Progress notes for each session; 
(2) The licensee may charge a fee for the reproduction of records, which shall be no greater than $ 1.00 per page for the first 25 

pages, and $0.50 per page for every page after 25. In addition, the actual cost of postage may be added. Reasonable costs of 
reproducing radiographs and such other kinds of records shall be the actual costs. "Actual costs" means the cost of the material and 
supplies used to duplicate the record and the labor and overhead costs associated with the duplication. 

(3) The licensee shall retain the patient record for at least two years from the date of last entry, unless otherwise provided by 
law. 

RulemakingAuthorily 468.802, 468.812(3) FS. Law Implemented 456.057(1 6), 465.0155, 465.022, 468.802, 468.812(3) FS. History-New 5-2-07. 



CHAPTER 64B16-28 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS - PERMITS 

64B16-28.101 Prescription Area Accessible to Inspection 
64B 16-28.102 Sink and Running Water, Sufficient Space, Refrigeration, Sanitation, Equipment 
64B16-28.103 Sufficient Space in Prescription Department (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.1035 Patient Consultation Area 
64B16-28. 104 Refrigeration (Repealed) 
64B16-28. 105 Sanitation (Repealed) 
64B16-28.106 Right to Inspect Invoices (Repealed) 
64B16-28.107 Pharmacy Equipment (Repealed) 
64B16-28.108 All Permits Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs 
64B16-28.1081 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours 
64B16-28.109 Prescription Department; Padlock; Sign: "Prescription Department Closed" 
64B16-28.l 10 Outdated Pharmaceuticals 
64B 16-28.111 Storage of Equipment (Repealed) 
64B16-28.l 12 Violations (Repealed) 
64B16-28.l 13 Permits; Single Entity; Single Location 
64B16-28.l 135 Change of Ownership (Transferred to 64B16-28.2021) 
64B16-28.l 14 Prescription Refills (Repealed) 
64B16-28.118 Unit Dose and Customized Patient Medication Package Returns by In-patients 
64B16-28.119 Data Processing Systems in Pharmacy (Repealed) 
64B16-28.l 191 Unclaimed Prescriptions 
64B 16-28.120 All Permits Storage of Legend Drugs; Prepackaging 
64B 16-28.121 Permit Fees (Repealed) 
64B16-28.130 Transmission of Prescription Orders (Repealed) 
64B16-28.140 Record Maintenance Systems for Community, Special-Limited Community, Special-Closed Systems, Special- 

Parenteral/Enteral, and Nuclear Permits 
64B 16-28.141 Requirements for an Automated Pharmacy System in a Community Pharmacy 
64B 16-28.150 Record Maintenance Systems for Institutional and Animal Shelter Permits (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.201 Definitions (Repealed) 
64B16-28.202 Closing of a Pharmacy; Transfer of Prescription Files 
64B16-28.2021 Change of Ownership 
64B16-28.203 Transfer of Medicinal Drugs; Change of Ownership; Closing of a Pharmacy 
64B16-28.301 Destruction of Controlled Substances Institutional Pharmacies 
64B16-28.303 Destruction of Controlled Substances All Permittees (excluding Nursing Homes) 
64B 16-28.402 Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs Community Pharmacy Permit (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.404 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours (Repealed) 
64B 16-28.450 Centralized Prescription Filling, Delivering and Returning 
64B16-28.451 Pharmacy Common Database 
64B 16-28.501 Institutional Permit Consultant Pharmacist of Record 
64B 16-28.502 Class I Institutional Permit and Class II Institutional Permit Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs for 

Inpatients of a Nursing Home 
64B16-28.503 Transmission of Starter Dose Prescriptions for Patients in Class I Institutional or Modified II B Facilities 
64B16-28.602 Institutional Class II Dispensing. 
64B 16-28.6021 Institutional Class II Pharmacy Emergency Department Dispensing 
64B 16-28.603 Class II Institutional Pharmacy Operating Hours 
64B 16-28.604 Class II Institutional Pharmacy Department Security 
64B 16-28.605 Class II Institutional Pharmacies Automated Distribution and Packaging 
64B16-28.606 Remote Medication Order Processing for Class II Institutional Pharmacies 
64B16-28.607 Automated Pharmacy System— Long-Term Care, Hospice, and Prison 
64B16-28.702 Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies 
64B16-28.800 Special Pharmacies 
64B16-28.810 Special Pharmacy— Limited Community Permit 



64B 16-28.820 Sterile Products and Special Parenteral/Enteral Compounding 
64B16-28.830 Special Closed System Pharmacy 
64B16-28.840 Special Non Resident (Mail Service) 
64B16-28.850 Special Pharmacy ESRD 
64B 16-28.860 Special Pharmacy Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope Permit 
64B 16-28.870 Special-ALF 
64B16-28.900 Definitions Nuclear Pharmacy 
64B 16-28.901 Nuclear Pharmacy General Requirements 
64B 16-28.902 Nuclear Pharmacy Minimum Requirements 
64B 16-28.903 Training Qualifications (Repealed) 
64B16-28.904 Nuclear Pharmacist Continuing Education (Repealed) 

64B16-28.1O1 Prescription Area Accessible to Inspection. 
(1) The prescription department compounding room or any other place where prescriptions are compounded, filled, processed, 

accepted, dispensed, or stored in each pharmacy shall be so situated and located that authorized agents and employees of the 

Department or other persons authorized by law to enter and inspect, can observe and survey the confines of said department, room or 
area and can enter into said department, room or area after themselves, for the purpose of inspection at a reasonable hour 
or when the practice of the profession of pharmacy is being carried on, as defined in Section 465 .003, F.S., without having been 
previously detained or announced. Such inspection may be routinely conducted at any time by authorized agents of the Department 
to determine whether Chapter 465, F.S., or provisions of these rules have been violated or for other lawful purposes, and need not be 
in response to a complaint filed with the Department. There shall be a minimum of one (1) inspection per year except as otherwise 
provided herein or directed by the Board. 

(a) A pharmacy shall be inspected twice during the first year of operation. 
(b) A pharmacy which has had passing inspections for the most current three years, and no discipline during the most current 

three years shall be inspected every two years. 

(c) A pharmacy which fails to obtain a passing inspection or which is disciplined during the two year inspection cycle will be 
inspected annually until it achieves passing inspections for the most current three years, and no discipline during the most current 
three years as set forth in this subsection. 

(2) Authorized agents and employees of the Department or other persons authorized by law shall have the right to inspect 
invoices, shipping tickets, or any other document pertaining to the transfer of drugs or drug preparations, from or to all pharmacies 
and a reasonable amount of time shall be allowed for said information to be made available. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.017, 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, 11-2 -81, Formerly 21S-1.01, 21S- 

1.001, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.101, 61F10-28.101, 59X-28.101, Amended 5-4-05, 2-2-12. 

64B16-28.102 Sink and Running Water, Sufficient Space, Refrigeration, Sanitation, Equipment. 
There shall be provided for the prescription department of each pharmacy: 

(1) An adequate sink in workable condition and running water easily accessible to the prescription counter that shall be 
available during the hours when the prescription department is normally open for the business related to prescriptions. 

(2) Sufficient shelf, drawer or cabinet space for the neat and orderly storage of pharmaceutical stock, prescription containers, 
prescription labels, the required equipment, and all other items, articles or equipment stored therein and there shall be sufficient 
walking space and sufficient work counter space within each prescription department of said establishment so as to allow employees 
or pharmacists employed therein to adequately, safely, and accurately fulfill their duties related to prescriptions. 

(3) Adequate facilities for the proper storage of pharmaceuticals which require refrigeration, and such pharmaceuticals shall be 
stored therein, and in such manner as to preserve their therapeutic activity. 

(4) Adequate sanitation to insure the prescription department is operating under clean, sanitary, uncrowded, and healthy 
conditions. 

(5) The following items: 
(a) A current pharmacy reference compendium such as the United States Pharmacopoeia/National Formulary, the U.S. 

Dispensatory, USP DI, (United States Pharmacopoeia! Drug Information), the Remington Practice of Pharmacy, Facts and 
Comparisons or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the professional practice needs of that pharmacy, and a current 



copy of the laws and rules governing the practice of pharmacy in the State of Florida. It shall be acceptable, in lieu of an actual hard 
copy, to maintain these materials in a readily available electronic data format. 

(b) Such other equipment as is necessary to meet the needs of the professional practice of pharmacy. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S- 

1.02, 21S-1. 002, 21S-28. 102, 61F10-28. 102, 59X-28. 102, Amended 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.103 Sufficient Space in Prescription Department. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S- 

1.03, 21S-I. 003, 21-28.103, 61F10-28. 103, 59X-28. 103, Repealed 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.1035 Patient Consultation Area. 
A community pharmacy shall provide a private consultation area so all patients of the pharmacy will be able to obtain counseling 
without being overheard by others in the prescription dispensing area of the pharmacy. The consultation area must be accessible by 
the patient from the outside of the prescription dispensing area of the pharmacy without having to traverse a stockroom or the 
prescription dispensing area. In determining whether the area is suitable, consideration shall be given to the proximity of the 
counseling area to the check-out or cash register area, the volume of pedestrian traffic in and around the consultation area, and the 

presence of walls or other barriers between the counseling area and the prescription dispensing area of the pharmacy. The 
consultation area may consist of designated private counter space. The area shall be designated with a sign bearing "Patient 
Consultation Area", or words that are substantially similar. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History-New 9-20-99, Amended 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.104 Refrigeration. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S- 

1.04, 21S-1. 004, 21S-28. 104, 61F10-28. 104, 59X-28. 104, Repealed 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.105 Sanitation. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Amended 1- 

29-80, Formerly 07, 21S-I.007, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.105, 61F10-28.105, 59X-28.105, Repealed 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.106 Right to Inspect Invoices. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.017 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Amended 10-10- 

78, 4-30-85, Formerly 21S-1. 008, 21S-28. 106, 61F1 0-28.106, 59X-28. 106, Repealed 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.107 Pharmacy Equipment. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 465.022(1)(h) FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1)(h) FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18- 

74, Amended 4-8-80, 4-26-84, Formerly 21S-1.10, Amended 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-1.010, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.107, 61F10-28.107, 

Amended 6-4-9 7, Formerly 59X-28. 107, Amended 2-4-99, Repealed 5-4-05. 

64B16-28.108 All Permits Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs. 
Each container of medicinal drugs dispensed shall have a label or shall be accompanied by labeling. 

(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Controlled substance" means any substance named or described in Schedules Il-V of Section 893.03, F.S. 
(b) "Customized medication package" means a package that: 

1. Is prepared by a pharmacist for a specific patient. 
2. Is a series of containers. 
3. Contains two (2) or more solid oral dosage forms. 
(c) "Labeling" means a label or other written, printed, or graphic material upon an agent or product or any of its containers, 



wrappers, drug carts, or compartments thereof, as well as a medication administration record (MAR) if a medication administration 
record is an integral part of the unit dose system. 

(d) "Radiopharmaceutical" means any substance defined as a drug in section 201(g)(1) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic 
Act which exhibits spontaneous disintegration of unstable nuclei with the emission of nuclear particles or photons and includes any 
of those drugs intended to be made radioactive. This includes nonradioactive reagent kits and nuclide generators which are intended 
to be used in the preparation of any such substance, but does not include drugs which are carbon-containing compounds or 
potassium-containing compounds or potassium-containing salts which contain trace quantities of naturally occurring radionuclides. 

(e) "Serial number" means a prescription number or other unique number by which a particular prescription or drug package can 
be identified. 

(2) The label affixed to each container dispensed to a patient shall include: 
(a) Name and address of the pharmacy. 
(b) Date of dispensing. 
(c) Serial number. 
(d) Name of the patient or, if the patient is an animal, the name of the owner and the species of animal. 
(e) Name of the prescriber. 
(f) Name of the drug dispensed (except where the prescribing practitioner specifically requests that the name is to be withheld). 
(g) Directions for use. 
(h) Expiration date. 
(i) If the medicinal drug is a controlled substance, a warning that it is a crime to transfer the drug to another person. 
(3) The label on the immediate container of a repackaged product or a multiple unit prepackaged drug product shall include: 

(a) Brand or generic name. 
(b) Strength. 
(c) Dosage form. 

(d) Name of the manufacturer. 
(e) Expiration date. 
(f) Lot number: 
1. Manufacturer's lot number, or 
2. Number assigned by the dispenser or repackager which references the manufacturer's lot number. 
(4) A medicinal drug dispensed in a unit dose system by a pharmacist shall be accompanied by labeling. The requirement will 

be satisfied if, to the extent not included on the label, the unit dose system indicates clearly the name of the resident or patient, the 
prescription number or other means utilized for readily retrieving the medication order, the directions for use, and the prescriber's 
name. 

(5) A unit dose system shall provide a method for the separation and identification of drugs for the individual resident or patient. 
(6) A customized patient medication package may be utilized if: 

(a) The consent of the patient or the patient's agent has been secured, and 
(b) The label includes: 
1. Name, address and telephone number of the pharmacy. 
2. Serial number for the customized medication package and a separate serial number for each medicinal drug dispensed. 
3. Date of preparation of the customized patient medication package. 
4. Patient's name. 
5. Name of each prescriber. 
6. Directions for use and any cautionary statements required for each medicinal drug. 
7. Storage instructions. 
8. Name, strength, quantity and physical description of each drug product. 
9. A beyond use date that is not more than 60 days from the date of preparation of the customized patient medication package 

but shall not be later than any appropriate beyond use date for any medicinal drug included in the customized patient medication 
package. 

(c) The customized patient medication package can be separated into individual medicinal drug containers, then each container 
shall identify the medicinal drug product contained. 



(7) The label affixed to the immediate outer container shield of a radiopharmaceutical shall include: 
(a) Name and address of the pharmacy. 
(b) Name of the prescriber. 
(c) Date of the original dispensing. 
(d) The standard radiation symbol. 
(e) The words "Caution Radioactive Material." 

(0 Name of the procedure. 

(g) Prescription order number. 
(h) Radionuclide and chemical form. 

(i) Amount of radioactivity and the calibration date and time. 
(j) Expiration date and time. 
(k) If a liquid, the volume. 
(1) If a solid, the number of items or weight. 
(m) If a gas, the number of ampules or vials. 

(n) Molybdenum 99 content to the United States Pharmacopeia (UPS) limits. 
(o) Name of the patient or the words "Physician's Use Only." 
(8) The label affixed to the immediate inner container of a radiopharmaceutical to be distributed shall include: 

(a) The standard radiation symbol. 
(b) The words "Caution Radioactive Material." 
(c) Radionuclide and chemical form. 

(d) Name of the procedure. 
(e) Prescription order number of the radiopharmaceutical. 
(f) Name of the pharmacy. 
(9) The labeling on a carton or package containing a medicinal drug or product dispensed from an Extended Scope Renal 

Dialysis (ESRD) pharmacy shall include: 
(a) "Use as Directed" statement. 
(b) The name and address of the person to whom the products will be delivered. 
(c) Name of the prescriber. 
(d) Name and address of the ESRD pharmacy location from which the products were shipped. 
(e) Prescription number. 

(0 Any special instructions regarding delivery dates or locations. 

(g) Beyond use date or, if the medicinal drug or product is dispensed in an unopened sealed package, the manufacturer's 
expiration date. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Amended 10- 

10-78, 9-18-84, 1-20-85, Formerly 21S-1.13, Amended 10-2 -88, Formerly 21S-1.013, Amended 7-31-91, 10-1 -92, 4-19-93, 7-12-93, Formerly 21S- 

28.108, 61F10-28. 108, 59X-28. 108, Amended 3-31-05. 

64B16-28.1081 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours. 
Any person who receives a community pharmacy permit pursuant to Section 465.018, F.S., and commences to operate such an 

establishment shall keep the prescription department of the establishment open for a minimum of forty (40) hours per week. The 
Board hereby approves exceptions to the requirements noted above and permits closing of the prescription department for the 
following holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July (Independence Day), Labor Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving, 
Christmas and any bona fide religious holiday provided that notice of such closing is given in a sign as set forth herein. A sign in 
block letters not less than one inch in height stating the hours the prescription department is open each day shall be displayed either 
at the main entrance of the establishment or at or near the place where prescriptions are dispensed in a prominent place that is in 

clear and unobstructed view. The prescription department manager may petition the Board in writing to operate the prescription 
department for less than forty (40) hours per week, but no less than twenty (20) hours per week. Prior to approving reduced hours, 
the Board may require the prescription department manager to appear before the Board to explain in detail the services that will be 
performed. Any pharmacy open less than 40 hours shall have a policy and procedure that provides a mechanism for access to a 



pharmacist during the time the pharmacy is not open for the remainder of the forty hour week. Any pharmacy that is not open 40 
hours a week, must post the days and hours that the pharmacy is open and the information for after-hours access. Any pharmacy 
open less than 40 hours shall also have a policy and procedure for transferring a prescription pursuant to Rule 64B16-27.105, 
F.A.C., or receiving an emergency dose pursuant to Section 465.0275, F.S. during the time the pharmacy is open less than 40 hours. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0220) FS. History—New 4-10-05, Amended 2-1-12. 

64B16-28.109 Prescription Department; Padlock; Sign: "Prescription Department Closed." 
(1) The prescription department of any community pharmacy permittee shall be considered closed whenever the establishment 

is open and a pharmacist is not present and on duty. A sign with bold letters not less than two (2) inches in width and height, shall be 
displayed in a prominent place in the prescription department so that it may easily be read by patrons of that establishment. The sign 
shall contain the following language: "Prescription Department Closed." 

(2) The term "not present and on duty" shall not be construed to prevent a pharmacist from exiting the prescription department 
for the purpose of consulting or responding to inquiries or providing assistance to patients or customers, attending to personal 
hygiene needs, taking a meal break pursuant to Rule 64B16-27.1001, F.A.C., or performing any other function for which the 
pharmacist is responsible, provided that such activities are conducted in a manner consistent with the pharmacist's responsibility to 

provide pharmacy services. 
(3) At all times when the prescription department is closed, either because of the absence of a pharmacist or for any other 

reason, it shall be separated from the remainder of the establishment by partition or other means of enclosure, thereby preventing 
access to the prescription department by persons not licensed in Florida to practice the profession of pharmacy. 

(4) The partition or other means of enclosure shall be securely locked or padlocked and only a pharmacist shall have the means 
to gain access to the prescription department. 

(5) Whenever the prescription department of any community pharmacy establishment is closed, no person other than a 

pharmacist shall enter, be permitted to enter or remain in the prescription department. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 8-20-63, 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 5-6-80, Formerly 21S-I.14, 21S-I.014, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.109, 61F10-28.109, 59X-28.109, Amended 6-15-98, 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.11O Outdated Pharmaceuticals. 
Persons qualified to do so shall examine the stock of the prescription department of each pharmacy at a minimum interval of four 
months, and shall remove all deteriorated pharmaceuticals, or pharmaceuticals which bear upon the container an expiration date 
which date has been reached, and under no circumstances will pharmaceuticals or devices which bear upon the container an 
expiration date which has been reached be sold or dispensed to the public. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S- 

1.1 21S-I.0I 21S-28.110, 61F10-28. 110, 59X-28. 110. 

64B16-28.111 Storage of Equipment. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—Repromulgated 12-18-74, Formerly 21S-1 .1 9, 21S-1.019, 

21S-28. 111, 61F10-28. 111, 59X-28. 111, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.1 12 Violations. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 8-20-63, Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Formerly 21S-1.23, 21S-1.023, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.112, 61F10-28.112, 59X-28.112, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.113 Permits; Single Entity; Single Location. 
A Board of Pharmacy permit shall be issued only to a single entity at a single location. The service provided by the permit shall be 
consistent with the issued permit. A single location shall be defined as: 

(1) A contiguous area under the control of the permit holder. For purposes of this section, a public thoroughfare will be 
considered to have not broken the area of contiguity; and 



(2) An area not more than one-half mile from the central location of the permit. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(1 0)(a), 465.018, 465.019, 465.0193, 465.0196 FS. History—New 1 -30-96, 

Formerly 59X-28.113. 

64B16-28.1135 Change of Ownership. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (1 1) (a), 465.018, 465.019, 465.0193, 465.0196, 465.022(7) FS. History— 

New 4-19-00, Amended 1-2-02, Transferred to 64B16-28.2021. 

64B16-28.114 Prescription Refills. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.016(1), 465.022, 465.022(1) (a), 893.04 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 12-18-74, Formerly 

21S-1.28, 21S-1.028, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.114, 61F10-28.114, 59X-28.114, Amended 2-4-02, 7-1-02, Repealed 10-5-09. 

64B16-28.118 Unit Dose and Customized Patient Medication Package Returns by In-patients. 
No pharmacist shall place into the stock of any pharmacy permittee any part of any prescription, compounded or dispensed, which is 

returned by a patient except under the following conditions: 
(1) In a closed drug delivery system in which unit dose or customized patient medication packages are dispensed to in-patients, 

the unused medication may be returned to the pharmacy for redispensing only if each unit dose or customized patient medication 
package is individually sealed and if each unit dose or the unit dose system, or the customized patient medication package container 
or the customized patient medication package unit of which it is clearly a part is labeled with the name of the drug, dosage strength, 
manufacturer's control number, and expiration date, if any. 

(2) In the case of controlled substances, as it is allowed by Federal Law. 

(3) A "unit dose system" to which this rule applies means a system wherein all individually sealed unit doses are physically 
connected as a unit. For purpose of this section, a product in an unopened, sealed, manufacture's container is deemed to be a unit 
dose package. 

(4) A "customized patient medication package" to which this rule applies means a system wherein all USP approved multi-dose 
units are physically connected and are referred to as a container. The use of customized patient medication packages must comply 
with the provisions of subsection 64B16-28.108(5), F.A.C. 

(5) A "closed drug delivery system" to which this rule applies is a system in which the actual control of the unit dose or 

customized patient medication package is maintained by the facility rather than by the individual patient. 
(6) All pharmacies utilizing unit dose or customized patient medication packages shall address specific policies and procedures 

regarding their preparation and use in their Policy and Procedures Manual. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.016(1) (1) FS. History—New 11-10-80, Formerly 21S-1 .3 6, 21S-1.036, Amended 

7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.118, 61F10-28.118, 59X-28.118, Amended 9-23-99, 7-1-02. 

64B16-28.119 Data Processing Systems in Pharmacy. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 FS. History—New 9-21-83, Formerly 21S-1.38, 

21S-1.038, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.119, Amended 3-16-94, Formerly 61F10-28.119, 59X-28.119, Repealed 7-15-99. 

64B16-28.1 191 Unclaimed Prescriptions. 
Prescriptions that are unclaimed may be retained by a pharmacy and reused for a period up to one year from the date of filling; 
however, any product reaching the product's expiration date prior to one year or any product subject to a recall shall not be reused. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0255 FS. Law Implemented 465.0255 FS. History—New 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.120 All Permits — Storage of Legend Drugs; Prepackaging. 
(1) All medicinal drugs or drug preparations as defined by Section 465.003(8), F.S., shall be stored: 
(a) Within the confines of the prescription department of a community pharmacy permittee as defined in Section 465.018, F.S. 

(b) In a Class II Institutional pharmacy as defined by Section 465.019(2)(b), F.S., within the confines of the pharmacy provided, 



however, that those medicinal drugs established by the consultant pharmacist as supportive to treatment procedures such as medical 
drugs, surgical, obstetrical, diagnostic, etc., may be permitted to be stored in those areas where such treatment is conducted 
consistent with proper control procedures as provided by the policy and procedure manual of the pharmacy. 

(2) All medicinal drugs or drug preparations as defined in Section 465.003(8), F.S., within Class I Institutional permittees as 

defined in Section 465.019(2)(a), F.S., and Special ALF Permit 64B16-28.870, F.A.C., shall: 

(a) Be administered from individual prescription containers to the individual patient; and 
(b) Be prohibited within the confines of Class I Institutional pharmacies unless obtained upon a proper prescription and properly 

labeled in accordance with Chapter 499, F.S., and the rules and regulations contained in Chapter 59A-4, F.A.C., incorporated by 
reference and effective August 1, 2006, pertaining to the licensure of nursing homes and related facilities. 

(3) Prepackaging of medication, whether a part of a unit dose system or a part of a multiple dose drug distribution system in an 
extended care facility or hospital holding a valid Class II Institutional pharmacy permit, must be done in accordance with procedures 
set up by the consultant pharmacist of record in the policy and procedure manual; and in the case of a pharmacy holding a valid 
community pharmacy permit must be done in accordance with procedures set up by the prescription department manager. 

(4) Medicinal drugs and proprietary preparations as identified above that are stored in treatment areas must be accessible only 
to licensed staff (pharmacists, nurses, physicians, advanced registered nurse practitioners, physician assistants, respiratory and 
physical therapist, radiology technicians and registered pharmacy technicians, etc.) in accordance with their license, practice act, or 
to other personnel specifically authorized by the institution. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 435.019(2), 465.003(7), 465.022 FS. History—New 9-18-84, Formerly 21S-1. 44, 

21S-1.044, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.120, 61F10-28.120, 59X-28.120, Amended 2-8-07, 8-16-10. 

64B16-28.121 Permit Fees. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022 FS. History—New 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28. 121, 61F10-28. 121, 59X- 

28.121, Amended 10-30-00, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.130 Transmission of Prescription Orders. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 'S. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 'S. History—New 3-16-94, Formerly 61F10- 

28.130, 59X-28.130, Repealed 4-10-05. 

64B16-28.140 Record Maintenance Systems for Community, Special-Limited Community, Special-Closed Systems, 
Special-Parenteral/Enteral, and Nuclear Permits. 

(1) Requirements for records maintained in a data processing system. 
(a) The pharmacy must comply with the provisions of2l C.F.R. Section 1304.04 (a regulation of the Federal Drug Enforcement 

Administration), which is hereby incorporated by reference as of March 1, 1998, when such is applicable to operate such a data 
processing system if any controlled substances (as that term is used in Ch. 893, F.S.) are dispensed from the pharmacy. 

(b) Any pharmacy using a data processing system must meet the requirements of 21 C.F.R. Section 1306.22, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference as of March 1, 1998. 

(c) If a pharmacy's data processing system is not in compliance with this subsection, the pharmacy must maintain a manual 
recordkeeping system as specified in Rule 64Bl6-27.800, F.A.C., and Section 893.07, F.S. 

(d) Original prescriptions, including prescriptions received as provided for in Rule 64B16-28.130, F.A.C., Transmission of 
Prescription Orders, shall be reduced to a hard copy if not received in written form. All original prescriptions shall be retained for a 

period of not less than two years from date of last filling. To the extent authorized by 21 C.F.R. Section 1304.04, a pharmacy may, 

in lieu of retaining the actual original prescriptions, use an electronic imaging recordkeeping system, provided such system is 

capable of capturing, storing, and reproducing the exact image of the prescription, including the reverse side of the prescription if 
necessary, and that such image be retained for a period of no less than two years from the date of last filling. 

(e) Original prescriptions shall be maintained in a two or three file system as specified in 21 C.F.R. 1304.04(h). 

(0 Requirements for back-up systems. 
1. The pharmacy shall maintain a back-up copy of information stored in the data processing system using disk, tape or other 

electronic back-up system and update this back-up copy on a regular basis, at least weekly, to assure that data is not lost due to 



system failure. 
2. Data processing systems shall have a workable (electronic) data retention system which can produce an audit trail of drug 

usage for the preceding two years as specified in Rule 64B16-27.800, F.A.C. 
(g) Change or discontinuance of a data processing system. 
1. Records of dispensing. A pharmacy that changes or discontinues use of a data processing system must: 

a. Transfer the records of dispensing to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records of dispensing to a printout which contains the same information required on the daily printout as specified 

in paragraph (3)(b) of this section. The information on this hard-copy printout shall be sorted and printed by prescription number and 
list each dispensing for this prescription chronologically. 

2. Other records. A pharmacy that changes or discontinues use of a data processing system must: 
a. Transfer the records to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records to a printout which contains all of the information required on the original document. 
3. Maintenance of purged records. Information purged from a data processing system must be maintained by the pharmacy for 

two years from the date of initial entry into the data processing system. 
(h) Loss of Data. The prescription department manager shall report to the Board in writing any significant loss of information 

from the data processing system within 10 days of discovery of the loss. 
(2) All transfers of prescriptions must be strictly in accordance with the provisions of Section 465.026, F.S., and Rule 64B16- 

27.105, F.A.C. 
(3) Records of dispensing. 
(a) Each time a prescription drug order is filled or refilled, a record of such dispensing shall be entered into the data processing 

system. 
(b) The data processing system shall have the capacity to produce a daily hard-copy printout of all original prescriptions 

dispensed and refilled. This hard copy printout shall contain the following information: 
1. Unique identification number of the prescription; 
2. Date of dispensing; 
3. Patient name; 
4. Prescribing practitioner's name; 
5. Name and strength of the drug product actually dispensed, if generic name, the brand name or manufacturer of drug 

dispensed; 
6. Quantity dispensed; 
7. Initials or an identification code of the dispensing pharmacist; and 
8. If not immediately retrievable via CRT display, the following shall also be included on the hard-copy printout: 
a. Patient's address; 
b. Prescribing practitioner's address; 
c. Practitioner's DEA registration number, if the prescription drug order is for a controlled substance. 
d. Quantity prescribed, if different from the quantity dispensed; 
e. Date of issuance of the prescription drug order, if different from the date of dispensing; and 
f. Total number of refills dispensed to date for that prescription drug order. 
(c) The daily hard-copy printout shall be produced within 72 hours of the date on which the prescription drug orders were 

dispensed and shall be maintained in a separate file at the pharmacy. Records of controlled substances shall be readily retrievable 
from records of non-controlled substances. 

(d) Each individual pharmacist who dispenses or refills a prescription drug order shall verify that the data indicated on the daily 
hard-copy printout is correct, by dating and signing such document in the same manner as signing a check or legal document (e.g., 
J.H. Smith, or John H. Smith) within seven days from the date of dispensing. 

(e) In lieu of producing the printout described in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, the pharmacy shall maintain a log book 
in which each individual pharmacist using the data processing system shall sign a statement each day, attesting to the fact that the 
information entered into the data processing system that day has been reviewed by him or her and is correct as entered. Such log 
book shall be maintained at the pharmacy employing such a system for a period of two years after the date of dispensing provided, 
however, that the data processing system can produce the hard-copy printout on demand by an authorized agent of the Department 



of Health. If no printer is available on site, the hard-copy printout shall be available within 48 hours with a certification by the 
individual providing the printout, which states that the printout is true and correct as of the date of entry and such information has 

not been altered, amended or modified. 
(f) The prescription department manager and the permit holder are responsible for the proper maintenance of such records and 

responsible that such data processing system can produce the records outlined in this section and that such system is in compliance 
with this subsection. 

(g) Failure to provide the records set out in this section, either on site or within 48 hours for whatever reason, constitutes failure 
to keep and maintain records. 

(h) In the event that a pharmacy which uses a data processing system experiences system downtime, the following is applicable; 
1. An auxiliary procedure shall ensure that refills are authorized by the original prescription drug order and that the maximum 

number of refills has not been exceeded or that authorization from the prescribing practitioner has been obtained prior to dispensing 
a refill; and 

2. All of the appropriate data shall be retained for on-line data entry as soon as the system is available for use again. 
(4) Compounding records. A written record shall be maintained for each batchlsub-batch of a compounded product under the 

provisions of Rule 64B16-27.700, F.A.C. This record shall include: 
(a) Date of compounding. 
(b) Control number for each batchlsub-batch of a compounded product. This may be the manufacture's lot number or new 

numbers assigned by the pharmacist. If the number is assigned by the pharmacist, the pharmacist shall also record the original 
manufacture's lot number and expiration dates. If the original numbers and expiration dates are not known, the pharmacy shall 
record the source and acquisition date of the component. 

(c) A complete formula for the compounded product maintained in a readily retrievable form including methodology and 
necessary equipment. 

(d) A signature or initials of the pharmacist or pharmacy technician performing the compounding. 
(e) A signature or initials of the pharmacist responsible for supervising pharmacy technicians involved in the compounding 

process. 

(0 The name(s) of the manufacturer(s) of the raw materials used. 
(g) The quantity in units of finished products or grams of raw materials. 
(h) The package size and number of units prepared. 
(i) The name of the patient who received the particular compounded product. 
(5) Authorization of additional refills. Practitioner authorization for additional refills of a prescription drug order shall be noted 

as follows: 
(a) On the daily hard-copy printout; or 
(b) Via the CRT display. 
(6) Any other records, policy and procedure manuals, or reference materials which are not specifically required by statute or 

rule to be kept in a hard copy may be kept in a readily retrievable data processing system which complies with the provisions of 
subparagraph (1)(f)1. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (14), 465.022, 465.026, 893.07 FS. History—New 3-16-94, 

Formerly 61F10-28.140, Amended 3-12-9 7, 6-4-97, Formerly 59X-28.140, Amended 10-29-9 7, 6-15-98, 11-11-98, 10-15-01. 

64B16-28.141 Requirements for an Automated Pharmacy System in a Community Pharmacy. 
(1) Definitions. "Automated pharmacy system" means a mechanical system, located within or adjacent to the prescription 

department, that performs operations or activities, other than compounding or administration, relative to storage, packaging, 
dispensing, or distribution of medication, and which collects, controls, and maintains all transaction information. 

(2) General Requirements. A pharmacy may use an automated pharmacy system provided that: 

(a) The pharmacy develops and maintains a policy and procedure manual that includes: 
1. The type or name of the system including a serial number or other identifying nomenclature. 
2. A method to ensure security of the system to prevent unauthorized access. Such method may include the use of electronic 

passwords, biometric identification (optic scanning or fingerprint) or other coded identification. 
3. A process of filling and stocking the system with drugs; an electronic or hard copy record of medication filled into the system 



including the product identification, lot number, and expiration date. 
4. A method of identifying all the registered pharmacy interns or registered pharmacy technicians involved in the dispensing 

process. 
5. Compliance with a Continuous Quality Improvement Program. 
6. A method to ensure that patient confidentiality is maintained. 
7. A process to enable the prescription department manager or designee to revoke, add, or change access at any time. 
(b) The system ensures that each prescription is dispensed in compliance with the definition of dispense and the practice of the 

profession of pharmacy. 
(c) The system shall maintain a readily retrievable electronic record to identifSi all pharmacists, registered pharmacy technicians, 

or other personnel involved in the dispensing of a prescription. 
(d) The system shall provide the ability to comply with product recalls generated by the manufacturer, distributor, or pharmacy. 

The system shall have a process in place to isolate affected lot numbers including an intermix of drug product lot numbers. 
(3) Additional Requirements for Patient Accessed Automated Pharmacy Systems. A pharmacy may use a patient accessed 

automated pharmacy system, provided that: 

(a) Meets the requirements in subsection (2) above. 
(b) The stocking or restocking of a medicinal drug shall only be completed by a Florida pharmacist, except as provided in 

paragraph (c) below. 
(c) If the automated pharmacy system uses removable cartridges or container to store the drug, the stocking or restocking of the 

cartridges or containers may occur at a licensed repackaging facility and be sent to the provider pharmacy to be loaded by personnel 
designated by the pharmacist if: 

1. A Florida pharmacist verifies the cartridge or container has been properly filled and labeled. 
2. The individual cartridge or container is transported to the provider pharmacy in a secure, tamper-evident container. 
3. The automated pharmacy system uses a bar code verification, electronic verification, weight verification, radio frequency 

identification (RFID) or similar process to ensure that the cartridge or container is accurately loaded into the automated pharmacy 
system. 

4. The Florida pharmacist verifying the filling and labeling is responsible if the cartridge or container is stocked or restocked 
incorrectly by the personnel designated to load the cartridges or containers. 

(d) The automated pharmacy system must use at least two separate verifications, such as bar code verification, electronic 
verification, weight verification, radio frequency identification (RFID) or similar process to ensure that the proper medication is 

being dispensed from the automated system. 
(e) The medication shall bear a patient specific label that complies with Rule 64B16-28.108, F.A.C. 

(0 The record of transactions with the patient accessed automated pharmacy system shall be available to authorized agents of 
the Department of Health. The record of transactions shall include: 

1. Name of the patient. 
2. Name, strength, and dosage form of the drug product dispensed. 
3. Quantity of drug dispensed. 
4. Date and time of dispensing. 
5. Name of provider pharmacy. 
6. Prescription number. 
7. Name of prescribing practitioner. 
8. Identity of the pharmacist who approved the prescription or order. 
9. Identity of the person to whom the drug was released. 
(4) The Florida pharmacist responsible for filling, verifying, or loading the automated pharmacy system shall be responsible for 

her or his individual action. 
(5) A prescription dispensed pursuant to the requirements of this rule shall be deemed to have been certified by the pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0 18, 465.022 FS. History—New 11-29-04, Amended 12-30-0 7, 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.15O Record Maintenance Systems for Institutional and Animal Shelter Permits. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.019, 465.02 6, 893.07, 828.055 FS. History—New 



4-12-95, Formerly 59X-28. 150, Repealed 5-3-05. 

64B16-28.201 Definitions. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 465. 022(1)(g) P'S. History—New 12-26-79, Amended 4-28-83, 4-30- 

85, Formerly 215-1 6.01, 215-16.001, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 215-28.201, 61F10-28.201, 59X-28.201, Repealed 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.202 Closing of a Pharmacy; Transfer of Prescription Files. 
(1) The term "prescription files" as used herein shall mean the drug dispensing records of a pharmacy which shall include all 

orders for drugs or medicinal supplies as defined by Section 465.003(7), F.S., inclusive of dispensing records for medicinal drugs 
listed within the provisions of Section 893.03, F.S., issued by a duly licensed practitioner, which serve to transfer possession of 
medicinal drugs from the pharmacy to the ultimate consumer. 

(2) The term "closing of a pharmacy" as used herein shall mean the cessation or termination of professional and business 
activities within a pharmacy for which a permit has been issued under Chapter 465, F.S. 

(3) Prior to closure of a pharmacy the permittee shall notify the Board of Pharmacy in writing as to the effective date of closure, 
and shall: 

(a) Return the pharmacy permit to the Board of Pharmacy office or arrange with the local Bureau of Investigative Services of 
the Department to have the pharmacy permit returned to the Board of Pharmacy; 

(b) Advise the Board of Pharmacy which permittee is to receive the prescription files; 
(4) On the date of closure of a pharmacy the former permittee shall: 

(a) Physically deliver the prescription files to a pharmacy operating within reasonable proximity of the pharmacy being closed 
and within the same locality. This delivery of prescription files may occur prior to the return of the pharmacy permit to the Board of 
Pharmacy office; and 

(b) Affix a prominent sign to the front entrance of the pharmacy advising the public of the new location of the former 
permittee's prescription files or otherwise provide a means by which to advise the public of the new location of their prescription 
files. 

(5) After the closing of a pharmacy as defined herein, the custody of the prescription files of the pharmacy shall be transferred 
to the new permittee, unless the former permittee and the new permittee inform the Board in writing that custody of the prescription 
files have been or are to be transferred to a pharmacy other than the new permittee. 

(6) A pharmacy receiving custody of prescription files from another pharmacy shall maintain the delivered prescriptions in 

separate files so as to prevent intermingling with the transferee pharmacy's prescription files. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022 (1) (g) FS. Law Implemented 465.022 (1) (g) FS. History—New 12-26-79, Formerly 215-1 6.02, 215-16.002, Amended 

7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.202, 61F10-28.202, 59X-28.202, Amended 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.2021 Change of Ownership. 
(1) A pharmacy permit is not transferable. Upon the sale of an existing pharmacy, a new application must be filed. In those 

cases where the permit is held by a corporation, the transfer of all the stock of said corporation to another person or entity does not 
constitute a change of ownership, provided that the initial corporation holding the permit continues to exist. 

(2) A change in ownership (and issuance of a new permit number) requires that new records be started and old records closed. 
The process for closing a pharmacy, including the transfer of prescription files and medicinal drugs, as outlined in Rules 64B 16- 

28.202 and 64B16-28.203, F.A.C., must be followed for the old permit. If the old permit has controlled substances, the new permit 
must record an "opening inventory" for DEA purposes. Both the new permit and the old permit must keep appropriate records for 
two (2) years for the transfer of legend drugs and controlled substances. 

(3) A change in the company or person who leases the building where the permit is housed or a change in the management 
company which contracts with the owner of the permit for the operation of the permit does not constitute a change in ownership. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(1 1)(a), 465.018, 465.019, 465.0193, 465. 0196, 465.022(7) FS. History— 

New 4-19-00, Amended 1-2-02, Formerly 64B16-28.1135, Amended 4-5-05. 



64B16-28.203 Transfer of Medicinal Drugs; Change of Ownership; Closing of a Pharmacy. 
Ownership of medicinal drugs, including those medicinal drugs within the provisions of Section 893.03, F.S., may be transferred to 

a new owner upon the change of ownership of a pharmacy, as defined in Rule 64B16-28.2021, F.A.C., or upon the closing of a 

pharmacy, as defined in Rule 64B 16-28.2021, F.A.C. The transferee entity acquiring ownership shall be authorized to prescribe, 
dispense or distribute such drugs. The transferor pharmacy shall provide the Florida Board of Pharmacy with the following 
information: 

(1) The name, address, pharmacy permit number and D.E.A. registration number of the transferor pharmacy. 
(2) The name, address, permit number, D.E.A. registration number (if available), and authorized business activity of the 

transferee entity. 
(3) The date on which the transfer will occur. 
(4) A complete inventory of all medicinal drugs within the provisions of Section 893.03, F.S., as of the date of transfer. If the 

medicinal drug is listed in Schedule II, the transferor shall make an exact count or measure of the contents. If the medicinal drugs are 

listed in Schedule III, IV, or V, the transferor shall make an estimated count or measure of the contents, unless the container holds 
more than 1,000 tablets or capsules, in which case an exact count of the contents shall be made. This inventory shall serve as the 

final inventory of the permittee transferor and the transfer inventory of the transferee entity. The transferor and transferee shall each 
retain a copy of the inventory in their records and shall provide the Board of Pharmacy with a copy of such inventory. Transfer of 
any controlled substance in Schedule II shall require the use of order form, D.E.A. form number 222. 

(5) Unless the permittee-transferor is informed by the Board of Pharmacy or the regional D.E.A. Administrator prior to the date 
on which the transfer was stated to occur, that the transfer may not occur, the permittee-transferor may proceed with the transfer. 

(6) On the date of transfer of the medicinal drugs, all records required to be kept by the permittee-transferor of the transferred 
drugs which are listed in Section 893.03, F.S., shall be transferred to the permittee-transferor. Responsibility for the accuracy of 
records prior to the date of transfer remains with the permittee-transferor, but responsibility for custody and maintenance shall be 
upon the permittee-transferee. It is the responsibility of the permittee-transferor to return all unused Schedule II order forms (D.E.A. 
form no. 222) to the regional D.E.A. office. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465. 022 (1) (g) FS. Law Implemented 465. 022(1)(g) FS. History—New 12-26-79, Formerly 21S-16. 03, 21S-1 6.003, 

21S-28.203, 61F10-28.203, 59X-28.203, Amended 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.301 Destruction of Controlled Substances Institutional Pharmacies. 
(1) Controlled substances that have been dispensed and not used by the patient shall not be returned to the pharmacy and shall 

be securely stored by the nursing home until destroyed. 
(2) A document must be completed showing the name and quantity of the drug, strength and dosage form, patient's name, 

prescription number and name of the institution. This documentation, at the time of destruction, shall be witnessed and signed by the 
consultant pharmacist, director of nursing, and the administrator or his designee, which may include a licensed physician, 
pharmacists, mid-level practitioner, or nurse. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.019 FS. History—New 4-21-8 7, Formerly 21S-19.001, Amended 7-31- 

91, Formerly 21S-28.301, 61F10-28.301, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-28.301, Amended 7-21-09. 

64B16-28.303 Destruction of Controlled Substances All Permittees (excluding Nursing Homes). 
(1) Controlled substances that cannot be retained as usable shall be securely stored in the prescription department of the 

permittee pharmacy until destroyed. 
(2) Permittees are required to complete a United States Drug Enforcement Administration (D.E.A.) Form 41. This form, at the 

time of destruction, shall be witnessed and signed by the prescription department manager or the consultant pharmacist of record and 
D.E.A. agent, or a Department inspector. This method of destruction does not require prior approval from D.E.A., but does require 
that a copy of the completed and witnessed D.E.A. Form 41 be mailed to D.E.A. immediately after destruction. 

(3) Another method of destruction shall be conducted by at least two persons who are either a licensed pharmacist, physician or 
nurse, or a sworn law enforcement officer or any combination thereof, to serve as the witnesses. A copy of the completed D.E.A. 
Form 41 and a letter providing the proposed date of destruction, the proposed method of destruction and the names and titles of the 
proposed witnesses must be received by D.E.A. at least two weeks prior to the proposed date of destruction which shall constitute a 

request for destruction. The drugs may not be destroyed until D.E.A. grants approval of the request for destruction. A copy of the 



completed and witnessed D.E.A. Form 41 shall be mailed to D.E.A. immediately after destruction. 
(4) In lieu of destruction on the premises, controlled substances may also be shipped to reverse distributors for destruction in 

conformity with federal guidelines. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022, 465.018 FS. History—New 4-21-8 7, Formerly 21S-19.003, Amended 7-31- 

91, Formerly 21S-28.303, 61F10-28.303, Amended 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-28.303, Amended 2-5-07, 10-27-09, 2-1-12. 

64B16-28.402 Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs — Community Pharmacy Permit. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1), 465.0255 FS. History—New 7-3-91, Formerly 21S-28.402, Amended 

12-2 7-93, Formerly 6110-28.402, 59X-28.402, Amended 9-1 7-97, Repealed 5-11-05. 

64B16-28.404 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 8-20-65, Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 5-6-80, 3-31-81, Formerly 21S-1.24, Amended 7-14-88, Formerly 21S-1.024, Amended 7-31-91, 3-15-92, Formerly 21S-28.404, 

61F10-28.404, Amended 9-21-94, Formerly 59X-28.404, 59X-28.404, Repealed 2-28-0 7. 

64B16-28.404 Regulation of Daily Operating Hours (Repealed). 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.022(1) FS. History—New 8-20-65, Amended 5-19-72, Repromulgated 12-18-74, 

Amended 5-6-80, 3-31-81, Formerly 21S-1.24, Amended 7-14-88, Formerly 21S-1.024, Amended 7-31-91, 3-15-92, Formerly 21S-28.404, 61F10- 

28.404, Amended 9-21-94, Formerly 59X-28.404, 59X-28.404, Repealed 2-28-0 7. 

64B16-28.450 Centralized Prescription Filling, Delivering and Returning. 
(1) As used herein: 
(a) The term "originating pharmacy" means a pharmacy wherein the prescription which will be filled by the central fill 

pharmacy is initially presented; and 
(b) The term "central fill pharmacy" means a pharmacy which performs centralized prescription filling, delivering, and 

returning for one or more originating pharmacies. 
(2) Pharmacies acting as the central fill pharmacy must be authorized to dispense medications under the provisions of Chapter 

465, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereto. 
(3) A community pharmacy which acts as the central fill pharmacy and which notifies the Board that its pharmacy practice is 

limited only to such practice shall be exempt from the following rules: 
(a) Rule 64B16-28.l035, F.A.C., Patient Consultation Area; 
(b) The signage requirement of subsection 64B16-28.109(l), F.A.C.; and 
(c) Rule 64B16-28.l081, F.A.C., Regulation of Daily Operating Hours. 
(4) All central fill and originating pharmacies engaged in centralized prescription filling shall create and keep current a Policy 

and Procedure Manual which shall: 

(a) Be maintained at the locations of the central fill and originating pharmacies; 
(b) Include the information required in Sections 465 .0265(2)(a)-(f), F.S. 

(5) Delivery of medications. Delivery of medications must be made in a timely manner. The originating and central fill 
pharmacies shall each be identified on the prescription container. 

(a) Delivery by central fill pharmacy to ultimate consumer. A central fill pharmacy may deliver medications for an originating 
pharmacy to the ultimate consumer or the consumer's agent under the following conditions: 

1. The pharmacies are under the same ownership or have a written contract specifying the services to be provided by each 
pharmacy, the responsibilities of each pharmacy, and the manner in which each pharmacy will comply with federal and state laws, 
rules and regulations. 

2. The pharmacies shall have a pharmacist available 40 hours a week, either in person or via two-way communication 
technology, such as a telephone, to provide patient counseling. 

3. The pharmacies shall include a toll-free number that allows the patient to reach a pharmacist for the purposes of patient 
counseling. 



4. The pharmacies shall each be identified on the prescription container label. The originating pharmacy shall be identified with 
pharmacy name and address. The central fill pharmacy may be identified by a code available at the originating pharmacy. 

5. The central fill pharmacy shall only deliver via carrier to the ultimate consumer or the consumer's agent those medications 
which could have been delivered via carrier by the originating pharmacy. 

6. The central fill pharmacy shall not deliver to the ultimate consumer or consumer's agent substances listed as controlled 
substances under Chapter 893, F.S. 

(b) The delivery of a filled prescription by a central fill pharmacy to the ultimate consumer or the consumer's agent pursuant to 

a contract with an originating pharmacy shall not be considered dispensing within the definition set forth in Section 465.003(6), F.S. 

(c) Each pharmacist that performs a specific function within the processing of the prescription shall be responsible for any errors 
or omissions committed by that pharmacist during the performance of that specific fttnction. 

(6) The supplying and receiving pharmacy shall each be identified on the prescription container label. The receiving pharmacy 
shall be identified with pharmacy name and address. The supplying pharmacy may be identified by a code available at the receiving 
pharmacy. Prescription and labeling requirements for pharmacies participating in central prescription filling, delivering and 
returning: 

(a) Prescriptions may be transmitted electronically from an originating pharmacy to a central fill pharmacy including via 
facsimile. The originating pharmacy transmitting the prescription information must: 

1. Write the word "central fill" on the face of the original prescription and record the name, address, and DEA registration 
number if a controlled substance of the originating pharmacy to which the prescription has been transmitted and the name of the 
originating pharmacy's pharmacist transmitting the prescription, and the date of transmittal; 

2. Ensure all the information required to be on a prescription pursuant to Sections 456.0392 and 893.04, F. S., is transmitted to 

the central fill pharmacy either on the face of the prescription or in the electronic transmission of information; 
3. Indicate in the information transmitted the number of refills already dispensed and the number of refills remaining; 
4. Maintain the original prescription for a period of two years from the date the prescription was last refilled. 
5. Keep a record of receipt of the filled prescription, including the date of receipt, the method of delivery (private, common or 

contract carrier) and the name of the originating pharmacy's employee accepting delivery. 
(b) The central fill pharmacy receiving the transmitted prescription must: 

1. Keep a copy of the prescription if sent via facsimile, or an electronic record of all the information transmitted by the 
originating pharmacy, including the name, address, and DEA registration number, if a controlled substance, of the originating 
pharmacy transmitting the prescription; 

2. Keep a record of the date of receipt of the transmitted prescription, the name of the licensed pharmacist filling the 
prescription, and dates of filling or refilling of the prescription; 

3. Keep a record of the date the filled prescription was delivered to the originating pharmacy and the method of delivery 
(private, common or contract carrier). 

4. A central fill pharmacy's pharmacist filling a written or emergency oral prescription for a controlled substance listed in 

Schedule II shall affix to the package a label showing the date of filling, the receiving pharmacy's name and address, a unique 
identifier (i.e. the supplying pharmacy's DEA registration number) indicating the prescription was filled at the central fill pharmacy, 
the serial number of the prescription, the name of the patient, the name of the prescribing practitioner, and directions for use and 
cautionary statements, if any, contained in such prescription or required by law. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0265 FS. Law Implemented 465.0030 6), 465.0265 FS. History—New 9-23-03, Amended 7-27-04, 4-28-08. 

64B16-28.451 Pharmacy Common Database. 
(1) A pharmacy licensed under this chapter may perform prescription drug processing for other pharmacies, provided that all 

pharmacies are under common ownership, utilize a common database, and are properly licensed, permitted or registered in this state 
or another state. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit a pharmacist employee of said pharmacies who is licensed in Florida or in 
another state from remotely accessing the pharmacy's electronic database from outside the pharmacy in order to process 
prescriptions, provided the pharmacy establishes controls to protect the privacy and security of confidential records. 

(2) Prescription drug processing shall include the following: 
(a) Receiving, interpreting, or clarifying a prescription; 
(b) Entering prescription data into the pharmacy's record; 



(c) Verifying or validating a prescription; 
(d) Performing prospective drug review as defined by the Board; 
(e) Obtaining refill and substitution authorizations; 
(f) Interpreting or acting on clinical data; 

(g) Performing therapeutic interventions; 
(h) Providing drug information concerning a patient's prescription; and 
(i) Providing patient counseling. 
(3) Each pharmacist that performs a specific ffinction within the prescription drug processing process via use of a common 

database shall be responsible for any errors or omissions committed by that pharmacist during the performance of that specific 
fttnction. 

(4) Each pharmacy performing prescription drug processing pursuant to this section must maintain a policy and procedure 
manual, which shall be made available to the Board or its agent upon request. The policy and procedures manual shall include the 
following information: 

(a) A description for how each pharmacy will comply with federal and state laws, rules and regulations; 
(b) The procedure for maintaining appropriate records to identifSi the pharmacies and pharmacists responsible for the 

prescription drug processing and dispensing of the prescription; 
(c) The policy and procedure for providing adequate security to protect the confidentiality and integrity of patient information; 

and 
(d) The procedure to be used by the pharmacy in implementing and operating a quality assurance program designed to 

objectively and systematically monitor, evaluate, and improve the quality and appropriateness of patient care. 

(5) The prescription drug processing of a prescription by one pharmacy for another pursuant to this section shall not be 
construed as the transferring of a prescription as set forth in Section 465.026, F.S. 

(6) In addition to all record requirements of Rule 64B16-28.140, F.A.C., all pharmacies participating in prescription drug 
processing, shall maintain appropriate records which identify, by prescription, the name(s), initials, or identification code(s) of each 
pharmacist or registered pharmacy technician who performs a processing fhnction for a prescription. Such records shall be 
maintained: 

(a) Separately by each pharmacy and pharmacist; or 
(b) In a common electronic file, as long as the records are maintained in such a manner that the data processing system can 

produce a printout which lists the functions performed by each pharmacy, pharmacist, registered pharmacy intern and registered 
pharmacy technician. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0266 FS. History—New 3-24-08, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.5O1 Institutional Permit — Consultant Pharmacist of Record. 
Each facility holding a Class I, a Class II, or a Modified Class II Institutional permit shall designate a consultant pharmacist of 
record to ensure compliance with the laws and rules governing the permit. The Board office shall be notified in writing within 10 

days of any change in the consultant pharmacist of record. The consultant pharmacist of record for a Class I, Modified Class II, or a 

Special ALF permit shall conduct Drug Regimen Reviews as required by Federal or State law, inspect the facility and prepare a 

written report to be filed at the permitted facility at least monthly. In addition, the consultant pharmacist of record must monitor 
monthly the facility system for providing medication administration records and physician order sheets to ensure that the most 
current record of medications is available for the monthly drug regimen review. The consultant pharmacist of record may utilize 
additional consultant pharmacists to assist in this review and or in the monthly facility inspection. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0125, 465.019, 465.022 FS. History—New 7-18-94, Formerly 61F10- 

28.50 1, 59X-28.501, Amended 1-2-02, 12-30-0 7. 



64B16-28.502 Class I Institutional Permit and Class II Institutional Permit — Labels and Labeling of Medicinal Drugs 
for Inpatients of a Nursing Home. 

(1) The label affixed to a container used in conventional dispensing to a Class I Institutional permit or a Class II Institutional 
permit which, within the scope of its practice, services only the inpatients of a nursing home as defined by Section 400.02 1(5), F.S., 
shall contain at least the following information: 

(a) The name of and address of the pharmacy; 
(b) The name of the prescriber; 
(c) The name of the patient; 
(d) The date of the original filling or the refill date; 
(e) The prescription number or other prescription identification adequate to readily identify the prescription; 
(f) The directions for use; 

(g) The name of the medicinal drug dispensed (except where the health care practitioner prescribing the drug specifically 
denotes that the name is to be withheld). 

(h) The quantity of the drug in the container. 
(2) The label affixed to a container used in dispensing substances listed in any of the schedules appearing in Chapter 893, F.S., 

in regard to conventional dispensing shall contain at least the following information: 
(a) All of the information required by subsection (1) of this rule; 
(b) The number of the prescription as recorded in the prescription files of the pharmacy in which it is filled; and 

(c) A clear, concise warning that it is a crime to transfer the controlled substance to any person other than the patient for whom 
prescribed. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0220) FS. History—New 7-31-91, Amended 10-1-92, Formerly 21S-28.502, 

61F10-28.502, 59X-28.502, Amended 8-16-JO. 

64B16-28.503 Transmission of Starter Dose Prescriptions for Patients in Class I Institutional or Modified II B Facilities. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Vendor pharmacy" means a community pharmacy or special closed system pharmacy which has a contract to dispense a 

medicinal drug to a patient in a facility holding a Class I Institutional Permit or Modified II B Permit. 
(b) "Starter dose pharmacy" means a pharmacy that dispenses a medicinal drug pursuant to a starter dose prescription to a 

patient in a facility served by the vendor pharmacy. 
(c) "Starter dose prescription" means a prescription transmitted by a vendor pharmacy to a starter dose pharmacy for the 

purpose of initiating drug therapy for a patient in a facility served by the vendor pharmacy. 
(2) A vendor pharmacy may transmit a starter dose prescription to a starter dose pharmacy if the vendor pharmacy: 
(a) Has written authorization from the facility to utilize a starter dose pharmacy. 
(b) Has a written contract with the starter dose pharmacy. 
(c) Has written authorization from a prescribing practitioner to act as the practitioner's agent for the purpose of transmitting a 

starter dose prescription. 
(d) Possess a valid prescription from the prescribing practitioner prior to transmitting the starter dose prescription. 
(e) Maintains a record of each starter dose prescription. 
(f) Maintains a policy and procedure manual that references starter dose prescriptions. 
(3) A starter dose pharmacy may dispense a medicinal drug pursuant to a starter dose prescription for a patient in a facility that 

holds a Class I Institutional Permit or Modified II B Permit if the starter dose pharmacy: 
(a) Has a written contract with the vendor pharmacy. 
(b) Maintains a record of each starter dose prescription. 
(c) Maintains a policy and procedure manual that references starter dose prescriptions. 
(4) The contract between a vendor pharmacy and a prescribing practitioner shall: 

(a) Be in writing. 
(b) Identify each facility served by the vendor pharmacy for which the authorization is valid. 
(c) Authorize the vendor pharmacy to transmit, as an agent of the practitioner, a starter dose prescription to a starter dose 

pharmacy. 



(d) Be on file at the vendor pharmacy, at the facility served by the vendor pharmacy, and with the prescribing practitioner. 
(e) Be available for inspection by agents of the Department of Health or the Board of Pharmacy. 
(5) The contract between the vendor pharmacy and the starter dose pharmacy shall: 

(a) Be in writing. 
(b) Identify each facility served by the vendor pharmacy. 
(c) Assign the responsibility for prospective drug use review required by Rule 64B16-27.810, F.A.C., to the vendor pharmacy. 
(d) Assign the responsibility for patient counseling required by Rule 64B16-27.820, F.A.C., to the vendor pharmacy. 
(e) Be referenced in the Policy and Procedure Manual of the vendor pharmacy and of the starter dose pharmacy. 
(f) Be updated as necessary to identify facilities or practitioners. 
(g) Be on file at the vendor pharmacy, at the starter dose pharmacy, and at the facility. 
(h) Be available for inspection by authorized agents of the Department of Health and the Board of Pharmacy. 
(6) A record of each starter dose prescription shall be: 

(a) Readily retrievable. 
(b) Maintained for two years. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.018, 465.019, 465.022 FS. History—New 11-29-04. 

64B16-28.602 Institutional Class II Dispensing. 
(1) Pharmaceutical preparations which are administered to patients of a hospital by the personnel of such institution shall only 

be taken from the original container, or from a container which has been prepared by a Florida licensed pharmacist. Only single 
doses of such preparations shall be removed from the container, and then only after the preparation has been prescribed for a specific 
patient, and the order has been duly recorded upon the records of the institution. This requirement shall not apply to nor be construed 
as preventing the administration of treatment in bona fide emergency cases, or further as prohibiting any person who is a duly 
licensed physician from dispensing medicinal drugs as defined in Chapter 465, F.S. A single dose of medicinal drugs based upon a 

valid physician's drug order may also be obtained and administered under the supervision of the nurse in charge consistent with 
good institutional practice procedures as established by the consultant pharmacist of record and written in the policy and procedure 
manual which shall be available within the pharmacy. 

(2) A Class II institutional pharmacy may contract with a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy for the 
pharmacy services provided for by Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C. 

(a) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies and institutional pharmacy permits shall create and comply with 
Policy and Procedure Manuals that delineate duties and responsibilities of each entity, including the following provisions: 

1. The institutional pharmacy permit shall maintain records appropriate to ensure the provision of proper patient care. 
2. The institutional pharmacy permit designee shall inspect and log in all medicinal drugs provided by the Special 

Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
3. A pharmacist for the institutional pharmacy shall provide drug utilization review and shall review each prescription order 

prior to transmission to the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
(b) Such Policy and Procedure manuals shall be made available to the Board or Department upon request. 
(c) Prior to contracting for such services the institutional pharmacy shall ensure that the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended 

Scope pharmacy is licensed under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019(2ftb), 465.0196, (1) FS. History—Amended 5-19-72, 

Repromulgated 12-18-74, Amended 10-10-78, Formerly 21S-1.11, 21S-1.011, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.602, 61F10-28.602, Amended 9- 

4-96, Formerly 59X-28.602, Amended 8-1 6-1 0. 

64B16-28.6021 Institutional Class II Pharmacy Emergency Department Dispensing. 
(1) Individuals licensed to prescribe medicinal drugs in this state may dispense from the emergency department of a hospital 

holding a class II institutional pharmacy permit. Such dispensing must meet the requirements provided in Section 465.0 19(4), F.S., 
and this section. 

(2) The following records of prescribing and dispensing must be created by the prescriber/dispenser and maintained by the 
consultant pharmacist of record within the facility; 

(a) Patient name and address. 





(2) General Requirements for the Use of Automated Medication Systems. 
(a) The consultant pharmacist of record shall be responsible for: 

1. Maintaining a record of each transaction or operation; 
2. Controlling access to the system; 
3. Maintaining policies and procedures for; 

a. Operation of the automated medication system; 
b. Training personnel who use the automated medication system; 
c. Maintaining patient services whenever the automated medication system is not operating; and 
d. Defining a procedure for a pharmacist to grant or deny access to the medication in the system. 
4. Security of the system; 
5. Assuring that a patient receives the pharmacy services necessary for good pharmaceutical care in a timely manner; 
6. Assuring that the system maintains the integrity of the information in the system and protects patient confidentiality; 
7. Establishing a comprehensive Quality Assurance program; 
8. Establishing a procedure for stocking or restocking the automated medication system; and 
9. Ensuring compliance with all requirements for packaging and labeling. 
(b) A pharmacist shall perform prospective drug use review and approve each medication order prior to administration of a 

medication except an override medication, a low risk override medication or a physician controlled medication. 
(c) A pharmacist shall perform retrospective drug use review for an override medication. 
(3) Multidisciplinary Committee for Decentralized Automated Medication Systems. 
(a) The consultant pharmacist of record shall convene or identify a multidisciplinary committee, which is charged with 

oversight of the decentralized automated medication system. 
(b) The Multidisciplinary Committee shall: 
1. Include at least one pharmacist; 
2. Establish the criteria and process for determining which medication qualifies as an override medication or a low risk override 

medication in a decentralized automated medication system; 
3. Develop policies and procedures regarding the decentralized automated medication system; and 
4. Have its decisions reviewed and approved by the consultant pharmacist of record. 
(4) Stocking or Restocking of a Decentralized Automated Medication System. 
(a) Medications in a decentralized Automated Medication System shall be stocked or restocked by a pharmacist, registered 

pharmacy intern, or by a registered pharmacy technician supervised by a pharmacist. 
(b) The stocking or restocking of a decentralized automated medication system shall follow one of the following procedures to 

assure correct medication selection: 
1. A pharmacist shall conduct a daily audit of medications placed or to be placed into an automated medication system that 

includes random sampling. 
2. A bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar verification process shall be utilized to assure correct selection of 

medication placed or to be placed into an automated medication system. The utilization of a bar code, electronic, or similar 
verification technology shall require an initial quality assurance validation followed by a monthly quality assurance review by a 

pharmacist. 
(5) Centralized Automated Medication Systems. A pharmacist utilizing a centralized medication system may distribute patient 

specific medications within the licensed health care facility without checking each individual medication selected or packaged by the 
system, if: 

(a) The initial medication order has been reviewed and approved by a pharmacist; and 
(b) The medication is distributed for subsequent administration by a health care professional permitted by Florida law to 

administer medication; and 
(c) A bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar verification process shall be utilized to assure correct selection of 

medication placed or to be placed into an automated medication system. The utilization of a bar code, electronic verification, or 
similar verification technology shall require an initial quality assurance validation, followed by monthly quality assurance review by 
a pharmacist. 



(6) Quality Assurance Program. The consultant pharmacist of record shall be responsible for establishing a quality assurance 
program for the automated medication system. The program shall provide for: 

(a) Review of override and low risk override medication utilization; 
(b) Investigation of a medication error related to the automated medication system; 
(c) Review of a discrepancy or transaction reports and identifSi patterns of inappropriate use or access; 
(d) Review of the operation of the system; 

(e) Integration of the automated medication system quality assurance program with the overall continuous quality improvement 
of the pharmacy as defined in Rule 64B16-27.300, F.A.C.; and 

(f) Assurance that individuals working with the automated medication system receive appropriate training on the operation of 
the system and procedures for maintaining pharmacy services when the system is not in operation. 

(7) Record Keeping. 
(a) The consultant pharmacist of record shall maintain records related to the automated medication system in a readily 

retrievable manner. 
(b) The following records shall be maintained for at least 60 days: 

1. Daily audits of stocking or restocking, if applicable; 
2. Daily audits for the output of centralized automated medication system, if applicable; and 
3. Transaction records for all non-controlled medications or devices distributed by the automated medication system. 
(c) The following records shall be maintained for at least two (2) years: 
1. Any report or analysis generated as part of the quality assurance program; 
2. A report or database related to access to the system or any change in the access to the system or to medication in the system; 

and 
3. Transaction records from the automated medication system for all controlled substances dispensed or distributed. 
(8) Compliance. The consultant pharmacist of record shall assure compliance with all requirements of Chapter 465, F.S., and the 

rules of Chapter 64B16, F.A.C. 
(9) Security. A decentralized automated medication system that contains controlled substances shall prohibit simultaneous 

access to multiple drug entities, drug strengths, or dosage forms of controlled substances, unless otherwise contained in labeled 
patient-specific form. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.0235, 465.026 FS. History—New 4-22-07, 

Amended 1-1-JO. 

64B16-28.606 Remote Medication Order Processing for Class II Institutional Pharmacies. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Remote Medication Order Processing" includes any of the following activities performed for a Class II Institutional 

Pharmacy from a remote location: 
1. Receiving, interpreting, or clarifying medication orders. 
2. Entering or transferring medication order data. 

3. Performing prospective drug use review. 
4. Obtaining substitution authorizations. 
5. Interpreting and acting on clinical data. 
6. Performing therapeutic interventions. 
7. Providing drug information. 
8. Authorizing the release of a medication for administration. 
(b) "Medication" means a medicinal drug or proprietary preparation. 
(c) "Prospective drug use review" means an evaluation of medication orders and patient medication records for: 

1. Over-utilization or under-utilization of medication. 
2. Therapeutic duplication of medication. 
3. Drug-disease contraindications. 
4. Drug interactions. 
5. Incorrect drug dosage or duration of drug treatment. 



6. Clinical abuse or misuse of medication. 
(2) General requirements. 
(a) All pharmacists participating in remote medication order processing shall be Florida licensed pharmacists. 
(b) A Class II Institutional pharmacy may utilize remote medication order processing if the pharmacist performing the remote 

medication order processing has access to sufficient patient information necessary for prospective drug use review and approval of 
medication orders. 

(c) A pharmacist shall perform the final check of a medication order. 
(d) If the pharmacist performing remote order processing is not an employee of the Class II Institutional pharmacy, the Class II 

Institutional pharmacy must have a written agreement or contract with the pharmacist or entity employing the pharmacist. The 
written agreement or contract shall: 

1. Outline the services to be provided. 
2. Delineate the responsibilities of each party including compliance with federal and state laws and regulations governing the 

practice of pharmacy as well as state and federal medical privacy requirements. 
3. Require that the parties adopt a policies and procedures manual. 
4. Provide that the parties have access to or share a common electronic file such that the pharmacist performing remote 

medication order processing has sufficient patient information necessary for prospective drug use review and approval of medication 
orders. 

(3) Policy and Procedures. A policy and procedures manual shall: 

(a) Be accessible to each party involved in remote medication order processing. 
(b) Be available for inspection by the Board or an authorized agent of the Department. 
(c) Outline the responsibilities of each party involved in remote medication order processing. 
(d) Include a current list of the name, address, telephone number, and license number of each pharmacist involved in remote 

medication order processing. 
(e) Include policies and procedures for: 

1. Protecting the confidentiality and integrity of patient information. 
2. Ensuring that a pharmacist performing prospective drug use review has access to appropriate drug information resources. 
3. Ensuring that medical and nursing staff understand how to contact a pharmacist. 
4. Maintaining records to identify the name, initials, or identification code of each person who performs a processing fttnction 

for a medication order. 
5. Complying with federal and state laws and regulations. 
6. Operating or participating in a continuous quality improvement program for pharmacy services designed to objectively and 

systematically monitor and evaluate the quality and appropriateness of patient care, pursue opportunities to improve patient care, and 
resolve identified problems. 

7. Reviewing the written policies and procedures and documenting the review every year. 
(4) Records. 
(a) A Class II Institutional Pharmacy involved in remote medication order processing shall maintain a record that identifies the 

name, initials, or identification code of each person who performed a processing fhnction for every medication order. The record 
shall be available by medication order or by patient name. 

(b) The record may be maintained in a common electronic file if the record is maintained in such a manner that the data 
processing system can produce a printout which identifies every person who performed a processing function for a medication order. 

(c) The record shall be readily retrievable for at least the past two (2) years. 

(d) The record shall be available for inspection by the Board or an authorized agent of the Department. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.026 FS. History—New 11-29-04. 

64B16-28.607 Automated Pharmacy System — Long Term Care, Hospice, and Prison. 
(1) Definitions. 
(a) "Automated pharmacy system" means a mechanical system that performs operations or activities, other than compounding 

or administration, relative to the storage, packaging, counting, labeling, and delivery of a medicinal drug, and which collects, 
controls, and maintains a record of each transaction. 



(b) "Provider pharmacy" means a pharmacy that provides pharmacy services by using an automated pharmacy system at a 

remote site. 

(c) "Remote site" means a long term care facility or hospice licensed under Chapter 400, F.S., or a state correctional institution 
operated under Chapter 944, F.S., that is not located at the same location as the provider pharmacy, at which pharmacy services are 

provided using an automated pharmacy system. 
(d) "Controlled substance" means a substance listed in Chapter 893, F.S., or 21 CFR Part 1308. 

(2) Provider Pharmacy Requirements. 
(a) A provider pharmacy may provide pharmacy services to a long term care facility or hospice licensed under Chapter 400, 

F.S., or a state correctional institution operated under Chapter 944, F.S., through the use of an automated pharmacy system. 
(b) An automated pharmacy system shall only be used to provide pharmacy services to an inpatient or a resident of the remote 

site. 

(c) Supervision of the automated pharmacy system shall be the responsibility of a Florida pharmacist employed by the provider 
pharmacy. 

(d) Every medicinal drug stored in the automated pharmacy system shall be owned by the provider pharmacy. 
(e) An automated pharmacy system shall be under the supervision of a pharmacist employed by the provider pharmacy. The 

pharmacist need not be physically present at the remote site if the system is supervised electronically. 
(f) A provider pharmacy shall have policies and procedures to ensure adequate security. 
(3) Prescription Department Manager Requirements. 
(a) The prescription department manager shall ensure that the automated pharmacy system complies with Chapter 893, F.S., and 

21 C.F.R., relating to the regulation of controlled substances, for each automated pharmacy system that contains a controlled 
substance. 

(b) The prescription department manager shall ensure that the use of an automated pharmacy system does not compromise 
patient confidentiality. 

(c) The prescription department manager or a designee shall: 
1. Authorize or deny access to the data from an automated pharmacy system or to a drug stored inside the automated pharmacy 

system. 
2. Document the training of each person who has access to the data from an automated pharmacy system or to a drug stored 

inside the automated pharmacy system. 
(4) Automated Pharmacy System Requirements. 
(a) A medicinal drug stored in bulk or unit-of-use in an automated pharmacy system is part of the inventory of the provider 

pharmacy and is not part of the inventory of any other pharmacy permit for the facility. 
(b) A medicinal drug may be removed from an automated pharmacy system for administration to a patient only after a 

prescription or order has been received and approved by a pharmacist at the provider pharmacy. This provision does not apply to a 

medication designated as an emergency medication if the automated pharmacy system is also used as an emergency medication kit 
in compliance with Section 400.142, F.S. and Rule 59A-4.112, F.A.C. 

(c) A pharmacist at the provider pharmacy shall control all operations of the automated pharmacy system and approve release of 
the initial dose of a prescription or order. A subsequent dose from an approved prescription or order may be released without 
additional approval of a pharmacist. However, any change made in a prescription or order shall require a new approval by a 

pharmacist to release the drug. 
(d) A pharmacist at the provider pharmacy shall comply with the patient record requirements in Rule 64B16-27.800, F.A.C., 

and prospective drug use review requirements in Rule 64B16-27.810, F.A.C., for every medicinal drug delivered through an 
automated pharmacy system. 

(e) If the facility where pharmacy services are being provided maintains a medication administration record that includes 
directions for use of the medication, a unit dose medication may be utilized if the provider pharmacy or the automated pharmacy 
system identifies and records the dispensing pharmacy, the prescription or order number, the name of the patient, and the name of 
the prescribing practitioner for each medicinal drug delivered. 

(f) Stocking or Restocking of an Automated Pharmacy System. 
1. The stocking or restocking of a medicinal drug in an automated pharmacy system at the remote site shall be completed by a 

pharmacist or other licensed personnel, except as provided in subparagraph 2. below of this section. 



2. If the automated pharmacy system uses removable cartridges or containers to store the drug, the stocking or restocking of the 
cartridges or containers may occur at the provider pharmacy and be sent to the remote site to be loaded by personnel designated by 
the pharmacist if: 

a. A pharmacist verifies the cartridge or container has been properly filled and labeled. 
b. The individual cartridge or container is transported to the remote site in a secure, tamper-evident container. 
c. The automated pharmacy system uses bar code verification, electronic verification, or similar process to assure that the 

cartridge or container is accurately loaded into the automated pharmacy system. 

(g) A medicinal drug that has been removed from the automated pharmacy system shall not be replaced into the system unless a 

pharmacist has examined the medication, the packaging, and the labeling and determined that reuse of the medication is appropriate. 
(h) Medication to be returned to the provider pharmacy's stock shall meet the requirements of Rule 64B16-28.118, F.A.C. 
(5) Security Requirements. 
(a) If a provider pharmacy intends to store a controlled substance in an automated pharmacy system: 
1. It shall maintain a separate DEA registration for each remote site at which a controlled substance is stored. 
2. It may utilize one DEA registration to include multiple automated pharmacy systems located at a single address. 
(b) A provider pharmacy shall only store a medicinal drug at a remote site within an automated pharmacy system which is 

locked by a mechanism that prevents access to a drug or to data by unauthorized personnel. 
(c) Access to the drugs shall be limited to a pharmacist or a registered pharmacy technician employed by the provider pharmacy 

or licensed personnel in the facility or institution who are authorized to administer medication. 
(d) An automated pharmacy system that contains a controlled substance shall prohibit simultaneous access to multiple drug 

entities, drug strengths, or dosage forms of controlled substances. 
(6) Emergency medication. If an automated pharmacy system is utilized for both a medication ordered for a specific patient and 

an emergency medication for which the review of a pharmacist is not required: 
(a) The emergency medication shall be stored separately from other patient medications. 
(b) The record shall identify the storage location from which the medication was released. 
(c) The record shall include the name of the medication, the patient, the prescriber, the person who accessed the automated 

pharmacy system, and the date and time of the release. 
(7) Record Keeping Requirements. 
(a) The record of transactions with the automated pharmacy system shall be maintained in a readily retrievable manner. 
(b) The record shall be available to an authorized agent of the Department of Health or the Board of Pharmacy. 
(c) The record shall include: 
1. Name or identification of the patient or resident. 
2. Name, strength and dosage form of the drug product released. 
3. Quantity of drug released. 
4. Date and time of each release of a drug. 
S. Name of provider pharmacy. 
6. Prescription number or order number. 
7. Name of prescribing practitioner. 
8. Identity of the pharmacist who approved the prescription or order. 
9. Identity of the person to whom the drug was released. 
(d) A record of every transaction with the automated pharmacy system shall be maintained for two (2) years. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.0235 'S. History—New 4-22-0 7, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.702 Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies. 
(1) Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies are those Institutional Pharmacies which provide specialized pharmacy services 

restricted in scope of practice and designed to provide certain health care pharmacy services that are not generally obtainable from 
other pharmacy permittees. These specialized institutional pharmacy practices are generally identifiable with short-term or primary 
care treatment modalities in entities such as primary alcoholism treatment centers, free-standing emergency rooms, rapid inlout 
surgical centers, certain county health programs, and correctional institutions. Medicinal drugs may not be administered, except to 

patients of the institution for use on the premises of the institution, in any facility which has been issued a Modified Class II 



Institutional Pharmacy Permit. All medicinal drugs as defined by Section 465.003(7), F.S., which are stocked in these pharmacies 
are only to be administered on premises as defined by Section 465.003(1), F.S., to inpatients on an inpatient or in-program basis. In- 

program patients are defined as those patients who have met program admission criteria required by the institution. 
(2) Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies are categorized according to the type of specialized pharmaceutical delivery 

system utilized and the following criteria (Categories are designated as Type "A", Type "B" and Type "C"): 
(a) The type of the medicinal drug delivery system utilized at the facility, either a patient-specific or bulk drug system, and, the 

quantity of the medicinal drug formulary at the facility, 
(b) Type "A" Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies provide pharmacy services in a facility which has a formulary of not 

more than 15 medicinal drugs, excluding those medicinal drugs contained in an emergency box, and in which the medicinal drugs 
are stored in bulk and in which the consultant pharmacist shall provide on-site consultations not less than once every month, unless 
otherwise directed by the Board afier review of the policy and procedure manual. 

(c) Type "B" Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies provide pharmacy services in a facility in which medicinal drugs are 

stored in the facility in patient specific form and in bulk form and which has an expanded drug formulary, and in which the 
consultant pharmacist shall provide on-site consultations not less than once per month, unless otherwise directed by the Board after 
review of the policy and procedure manual. 

(d) Type "C" Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies provide pharmacy services in a facility in which medicinal drugs are 

stored in the facility in patient specific form and which has an expanded drug formulary, and in which the consultant pharmacist 
shall provide on-site consultations not less than once per month, unless otherwise directed by the Board after review of the policy 
and procedure manual. 

(3) All Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies shall be under the control and supervision of a certified consultant 
pharmacist. 

(4) The consultant pharmacist of record for the Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacy shall be responsible for establishing a 

written protocol and a policy and procedure manual for the implementation of a drug delivery system to be utilized and the 
requirements of this rule. 

(5) A copy of the permittee's policy and procedure manual as provided herein shall accompany the permit application. The 
original policy and procedure manual shall be kept within the Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacy and shall be available for 
inspection by the Department of Health. 

(6) Drugs as defined in Section 465 .003(7), F.S., stocked in Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies, Type "A" and Type "B" 
as provided herein, shall be those drugs generally utilized in the treatment modalities encompassed within the health care scope of 
the particular institutional care entity. The protocol and the policy and procedure manual for Type "A" and Type "B" Modified Class 
II Institutional Pharmacies shall contain definitive information as to drugs and strengths thereof to be stocked. 

(a) The policy and procedure manual of facilities which are issued Type A Modified Class II Institutional Permits shall provide 
the following: 

1. Definitive information as to drugs and strengths to be stored. 
2. The establishment of a Pharmacy Services Committee which shall meet at least annually. 
3. Provisions for the handling of the emergency box including the utilization of separate logs for recordkeeping. 
4. Provisions for the secure ordering, storage and recordkeeping of all medicinal drugs at the facility. 
5. Provisions for the utilization of proof-of-use forms for all medicinal drugs within the facility. 
6. A diagram of the facility and the security and storage of the medicinal drugs. 
7. Provisions for maintaining the records of consultations for not less than two (2) years at the facility which shall be stored on- 

site and available for inspection by the Department of Health. 
(b) The policy and procedure manual of facilities which are issued Type B Modified Class II Institutional Permits shall provide 

the following: 
1. The establishment of a Pharmacy Services Committee which shall meet at least annually. 
2. Provisions for the handling of the emergency box including the utilization of separate logs for recordkeeping. 
3. Provisions for the secure ordering, storage and recordkeeping of all medicinal drugs at the facility. 
4. Provisions for the utilization of a perpetual inventory system for all controlled substances, injectables and other medicinal 

drugs as required by the Pharmacy Services Committee. 
5. A diagram of the facility and the security and storage of the medicinal drugs. 



6. Provisions for maintaining the records of consultations for not less than two (2) years at the facility which shall be stored on- 
site and available for inspection by the Department of Health. 

(c) The policy and procedure manual of facilities which are issued Type C Modified Class II Institutional Permit shall provide 
the following: 

1. The establishment of a Pharmacy Services Committee which shall meet at least annually. 
2. Provisions for the handling of the emergency box including the utilization of separate logs for recordkeeping. 
3. Provisions for the secure ordering, storage and recordkeeping of all medicinal drugs at the facility. 
4. Provisions for the utilization of a Medication Administration Record (MAR) for all medicinal drugs administered to patients 

of the facility. 
5. A diagram of the facility and the security and storage of the medicinal drugs. 
6. Provisions for maintaining the records of consultations for not less than two (2) years at the facility which shall be stored on- 

site and available for inspection by the Department of Health. 
(7) Controlled drugs as defined in Chapter 893, F.S., stocked as provided herein within a Type "A" Modified Class II 

Institutional Pharmacy shall be stocked in unit size not to exceed 100 dosage units unless an exception thereto is granted by the 

Board of Pharmacy. Proof of use record sheets showing patient's name, date of administration, initials of person administering drug, 
and other pertinent control requirements are required for both controlled and noncontrolled substance medicinal drugs in Type "A" 
Modified Class II Institutional Pharmacies. 

(8) A Modified Class II institutional pharmacy may contract with a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy for the 
pharmacy services provided for by Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C. 

(a) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies and institutional pharmacy permits shall create and comply with 
Policy and Procedure Manuals that delineate duties and responsibilities of each entity including the following provisions: 

1. The institutional pharmacy permit shall maintain records appropriate to ensure the provision of proper patient care. 
2. The institutional pharmacy permit designee shall inspect and log in all medicinal drugs provided by the Special 

Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
(b) Such Policy and Procedure manuals shall be made available to the Board or Department upon request. 
(c) Prior to contracting for such services the institutional pharmacy shall ensure that the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended 

Scope pharmacy is licensed under the provisions of Rule 64Bl6-28.860, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.019(2)(c) FS. History—New 4-22-82, Amended 11-5-85, Formerly 21S-1.37, 

Amended 4-16-86, Formerly 21S-1.037, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28. 702, 61F10-28. 702, Amended 9-4-96, Formerly 59X-28. 702, 

Amended 10-15-01. 

64B16-28.800 Special Pharmacies. 
(1) Special pharmacies are pharmacies providing miscellaneous specialized pharmacy service functions. The Board of 

Pharmacy, by this rule, provides for the establishment of the following special pharmacy permits: 
(a) Special-Limited Community. 
(b) Special-Parenteral and Enteral. 
(c) Special-Closed System Pharmacy. 
(d) Special-Non Resident (Mail Service). 
(e) Special-End Stage Renal Disease. 
(f) Special-Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope. 

(g) Special-ALF. 
(2) An applicant for any special pharmacy permit shall provide the Board of Pharmacy with an application (Form DOH\PH 105 

Revised 7/23/98, effective 11/11/98, which is hereby incorporated by reference and which can be obtained from the Department of 
Health) and a Policy and Procedure Manual which sets forth a detailed description of the type of pharmacy services to be provided 
within the special pharmacy practice. The Policy and Procedure Manual shall contain detailed provisions for compliance with the 

provision of Section 465.0196, F.S., and other applicable requirements contained in this chapter. 
(3) The Policy and Procedure Manual shall be prepared, maintained, and will be reviewed and is subject to approval by the 

Board of Pharmacy or its designee prior to the issuance of the permit and the initiation of the operation of the permittee. The policy 
and procedure manual is reviewed to determine if the operation of the facility will be in compliance with Chapters 465 and 893, 



F.S., and Chapter 64B16, F.A.C. The Policy and Procedure Manual shall be made available upon request of the Board or its agents. 
The applicant who requests a special permit shall be subject to inspection prior to the issuance of the permit. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196 FS. History—New 2-21-84, Formerly 21S-1.39, 21S-1.039, Amended 7-31- 

91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-28.800, 61F10-28.800, Amended 3-10-96, 6-4-97, Formerly 59X-28.800, Amended 11-11-98, 10-15-01. 

64B16-28.81O Special Pharmacy Limited Community Permit. 
A Special-Limited Community Permit shall be obtained by a Class II Institutional Pharmacy that dispenses medicinal drugs, 
including controlled substances to: 

(1) Employees, medical staff and their dependents for their personal use, 
(2) Patients of the hospital who are under a continuation of a course of therapy not to exceed a three (3) day supply, 
(3) Patients obtaining medical services in the facility's emergency room and, whenever it is otherwise appropriate, as indicated 

in the applicant's policy and procedure manual. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196 FS. History—New 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.810, 61F10-28.810, 59X- 

28.810, Amended 7-17-05. 

64B16-28.820 Sterile Products and Special Parenteral/Enteral Compounding. 
(1) Sterile Products and Parenteral/Enteral Compounding. 
(a) A sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy is a type of special pharmacy as provided by Section 

465.0196, F. S., which is limited in scope of pharmacy practice to render sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding 
functions. This pharmacy practice facilitates the utilization of certain institutional therapeutic measures by patients in the home 
environment or by patients in an institutional environment where such pharmacy service is unavailable. Pharmacy services, sterile 
products and parenteral/enteral products provided by a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy 
pursuant to prescription as defined by Section 465.003(13), F.S., shall be limited to the compounding and/or dispensing of: 

1. Sterile preparations for parenteral therapy, parenteral nutrition, and/or 
2. Sterile preparations for j ejunostomy feeding and sterile irrigation solutions, and/or 
3. Sterile preparations of cytotoxic or antineo-plastic agents, and/or 
4. Sterile products (i.e., injectables, eye drops, etc.). 
(b) Prior to engaging in a sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy practice an entity shall obtain a special 

sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy permit as provided herein. 
(2) Pharmacy Environment. The compounding and dispensing of sterile products and parenteral/enteral prescription 

preparations within a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall be accomplished in a pharmacy 
environment subject to the pharmacy permit laws of this state and in accordance with those requirements for the safe handling of 
drugs. The environment for this practice shall be set apart, and designed, and equipped to facilitate controlled aseptic conditions. 
Aseptic techniques shall prevail in this practice to minimize the possibility of microbial contamination. 

(3) General Requirements. 
(a) A special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall be under the control and supervision of a 

licensed pharmacist, who shall be designated prescription department manager on the application for a special sterile products and 
parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy. The prescription department manager or other licensed qualified pharmacist as provided 
herein shall be present on duty during all hours of operation of said pharmacy. Changes in prescription department manager shall be 
reported to the Board of Pharmacy office within 10 days by the permit holder and prescription department manager of record. A 
prescription department manager of a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall not be designated 
prescription department manager of record of more than one special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy, 
unless otherwise approved by the Board. The Board will consider the proximity of the facility as well as the administrative workload 
created by the two permits, in determining whether or not it will approve the designation of someone as a prescription department 
manager of more than one special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy. 

(b) A special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy shall provide special handling and packaging of 
compounded parenteral and enteral preparations when delivering from the pharmacy to the patient or institution as required to 

maintain stability of the preparations. All such preparations shall include the time and/or date of expiration on the label. Delivery 
from the pharmacy to the patient shall be made within a reasonable time. A special sterile products and parenteral/enteral 



compounding pharmacy shall provide telephone accessibility to its pharmacist(s) for its patients at all hours. 
(c) A patient profile shall be maintained for each patient. The profile must contain available medical information consistent with 

prevailing pharmacy standards which shall be confidential. 
(d) A Policy and Procedure Manual shall be prepared and maintained at each special sterile products and parenteral/enteral 

compounding pharmacy, and be available for inspection by authorized agents of the Board of Pharmacy and the Department. The 
Policy and Procedure Manual shall set forth in detail the objectives and operational guidelines of the permittee. The Policy and 
Procedure Manual shall include a Quality Assurance Program which monitors personnel qualifications, training and performance, 
equipment facilities, and random production sampling consistent with recommended standards for compounding and dispensing 
intravenous admixtures as set forth by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Organizations, the National Coordinating 
Committee and Large Volume Parenteral, and as provided by the Florida Board of Pharmacy. 

(e) Compounding shall be conducted within an annually certified laminar air flow (LAF) hood, except in the existence of a 

Class 100 certified compounding environment, or certified mobile isolation chamber, in which case compounding may be conducted 
without the use of a certified laminar air flow hood. All cytotoxins must be compounded in a certified vertical laminar air flow hood 
or certified mobile isolation chamber. The use of a Type A or Type B LAF hood used shall be dependent upon the volume of work 
anticipated. All certifications shall be performed following manufacturer specification. 

(f) Protective garb: gloves, face and eye, and gowns should be provided and used. 

(g) Proper aseptic procedures must be used at all times to prevent bacterial contamination of the product as well as chemical 
contamination of the operator. 

(h) All unused cytotoxic agents and material must be disposed of properly in accordance with accepted professional standards 
and applicable law. 

(4) An applicant for a special sterile products and parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy permit shall provide the Board of 
Pharmacy with the following: 

(a) Completed Board of Pharmacy permit application form (Form DPR/PH/107/9-88). 
(b) Copy of Policy and Procedure Manual. 
(c) Permit fee as provided in Rule 64B16-28.121, F.A.C. 
(5) Minimum Requirements for Space, Equipment, Supplies and Publications. 
(a) To ensure compliance with the general requirements as set forth, the following minimum requirements for space, equipment, 

supplies and publications shall be met by a pharmacy which operates under the special permit of a sterile products and 
parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy. These requirements are in addition to the minimum requirements for space and 
equipment required of other types of pharmacies when applicable. The minimum permit requirements are set forth as follows: 

(b) Space: 
1. The area for preparing sterile prescriptions as provided for by this rule referred to as the sterile admixture room shall be set 

apart from general work and storage areas. The room shall be adequately air conditioned or shall be under positive pressure. 
2. The sterile admixture room shall provide space for a minimum of one laminar flow hood. Additionally, the space shall be of 

adequate size to accommodate other equipment as provided herein and sufficient space to allow pharmacists and other employees 
working therein to adequately, safely, and accurately fulfill their duties related to prescriptions. 

(c) Equipment: 
1. Laminar Air Flow Hood(s): 
a. Horizontal and/or. 
b. Vertical. 
2. Refrigerator/freezer convenient to the clean room. 
3. Sink and wash area convenient to the clean room. 
4. Appropriate waste containers for: 

a. Used needles and syringes. 
b. All cytotoxic waste including apparel. 
(d) Supplies: 
1. Gloves, masks and gowns. 
2. Needles and syringes of various standard sizes. 

3. Disinfectant cleaning agents. 



4. Clean towels. 
5. Handwashing materials with bactericidal properties. 
6. Vacuum containers and various transfer sets. 

7. "Spill kits" for cytotoxic agent spills. 
(e) Current References: 
1. Chapter 465, F.S. 
2. Chapter 499, F.S. 

3. Chapter 893, F.S. 

4. Title 64B16, F.A.C., Rules of the Florida Board of Pharmacy. 
5. United States Pharmacopeia and National Formulary, or Remington Pharmaceutical Sciences, or the United States 

Dispensatory (along with the latest supplements), or an equivalent thereof sufficient in scope to meet the professional practice needs 
of the pharmacy, and a current authoritative therapeutic reference. 

6. Handbook of Injectable Drugs by American Society of Hospital Pharmacists. 
7. "Practice Guidelines For Personnel Dealing With Cytotoxic Drugs." 
(6) A community pharmacy permittee may perform parenteral/enteral compounding or prepare sterile products without 

obtaining an additional permit under this section, so long as prior to entering into such activities, the community pharmacy meets the 

requirements of subsections (1 )-(5) above and is inspected for compliance by the Department of Health. A community pharmacy 
permittee that was engaged in the preparation of sterile products other than parenteral/enteral products as of June 1, 2002 shall have 
until June 1, 2003 to meet the requirements of subsections (1)-(5) above for the preparation of sterile products other than 
parenteral/enteral products. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.007, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.007, 465.018, 456.0196 FS. History—New 4-26-84, Formerly 21S- 

1.40, Amended 7-27-86, Formerly 21S-1.040, Amended 7-31-91, 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-28.820, 61F10-28.820, Amended 3-11-96, 6-4-97, 

Formerly 59X-28.820, Amended 7-1-02, 1-29-03. 

64B16-28.830 Special — Closed System Pharmacy. 
(1) A Special Closed System Pharmacy permit is a type of special pharmacy as provided for by Section 465.0196, F.S., which 

dispenses medicinal drugs, utilizing closed delivery systems, to facilities where prescriptions are individually prepared for the 

ultimate consumer, including nursing homes, jails, ALF's (Adult Congregate Living Facilities), ICF-MR's (Intermediate Care 
Facility/Mentally Retarded) or other custodial care facilities when defined by AHCA rules which the Board may approve. 

(2) A special closed system pharmacy permittee shall maintain a policy and procedure manual including drug procurement, 
storage, handling, compounding, dispensing, record keeping and disposition. 

(3) A special closed system pharmacy permittee shall provide twenty-four hour emergency and on-call service. 
(4) A special closed system pharmacy permittee may dispense parenteral and enteral medications as provided by rule. 
(5) A special closed system pharmacy permittee shall be under the supervision of a prescription department manager who is 

responsible for maintaining all drug records, providing security of the prescription department and following other rules as relate to 

the practice of pharmacy. The prescription department manager of a closed system pharmacy shall not be the prescription 
department manager of any other pharmacy permit except when the permit is within the premises of a community pharmacy permit. 

(6) The utilization of registered pharmacy interns and registered pharmacy technicians is subject to the rules as provided by 
Rule 64B16-26.400, F.A.C. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196, 465.022 FS. History—New 7-31-91, Amended 10-1-92, Formerly 21S- 

28.830, 61F10-28.830, 59X-28.830, Amended 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.840 Special Non Resident (Mail Service). 
(1) A Special Non Resident (Mail Service) pharmacy is provided for by Section 465.0156, F.S. It is a pharmacy located 

outside this state delivering a dispensed medicinal drug in any manner into this state. 
(2) The pharmacy and the pharmacist designated as the prescription department manager or equivalent, for dispensing into 

Florida, must be licensed in the state of location. 
(3) Changes of location, corporate officers, and prescription department managers must be reported to the Board as required by 

Section 465 .0156(l)(b), F.S. 



(4) The pharmacy must have regular hours of operation of not less than six (6) days per week and not less than forty (40) hours 
per week. A toll-free telephone number must be available to patients. 

(5) A pharmacy outside of this state and not registered as a Non Resident Pharmacy may make a one-time delivery of a 

dispensed medicinal drug to a patient in this state as provided by Section 465 .0156(2), F.S. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022, 465.0156 FS. Law Implemented 465.0156 FS. History—New 10-14-91, Formerly 21S-28. 840, 61F10- 

28.840, 59X-28.840, Amended 10-27-09. 

64B16-28.850 Special Pharmacy — ESRD. 
(1) An ESRD Pharmacy is a type of special pharmacy as provided by Section 465.0196, F.S., which is limited in scope of 

pharmacy practice to the provision of dialysis products and supplies to persons with chronic kidney failure for self-administration at 

the person's home or specified address. Pharmacy services and dialysis supplies and products provided by an ESRD pharmacy shall 
be limited to the distribution and delivery of legend drugs included in schedule (3) below; or legend devices included in schedule (4) 

below; which are ordered by a physician for administration or delivery to a person with chronic kidney failure for self-administration 
at the person's home or specified address. All dialysis supplies and products provided by an ESRD pharmacy shall be prepackaged 
and shall be covered by an approved NDA or 510 (k) application issued by the Federal Food and Drug Administration. 

(2) Prior to engaging in an ESRD pharmacy practice an entity shall obtain a special ESRD pharmacy permit as provided herein. 
(3) Schedule of legend drugs: 
(a) Saline Solutions. 
(b) Porcine Heparin. 
(c) Beef Heparin. 
(d) Dextrose Solutions. 
(e) Doxercalciferol. 
(f) Epoetin Alfa. 

(g) NACL 1NJ 50 MEQ/20 ML. 

(h) Levocarnitine. 
(i) Lidocaine. 
(j) Vitamin Preparations (dialysate use only). 

(k) Paricalcitrol. 
(1) Peritoneal Dialysate Solutions. 
(m) Protamine Sulfate. 
(n) Potassium 20 MEQ/1 OML (dialysate use only). 
(o) Sodium Ferric Gluconate Complex or equivalent. 

(p) Sterile Water for Irrigation. 
(4) The schedule of legend devices includes: 
(a) Hemodialyzers. 
(b) Hemodialysis solutions. 
(c) Bloodlines and Associated Connectology. 
(d) Peritoneal Dialysis Tubing and Connectology. 
(5) The provision of legend drugs and devices included in the schedule necessary to perform dialysis to a person with chronic 

kidney failure for self-administration at the person's home or specified address shall be under the professional supervision of an 

appropriate practitioner licensed under Florida law. The consultant pharmacist shall assure that the following occurs: 
(a) The ESRD pharmacy receives a prescription from the prescribing practitioner directing the pharmacist to dispense and 

deliver to a person with chronic kidney failure (or such person's designee) any legend drugs and/or devices included in the 
formulary necessary for the self-administration of dialysis at such person's home or specified address. 

(b) That no dispensing shall occur unless the person with chronic kidney failure has been trained in the proper use and 
administration of such products. Further, the consulting pharmacist shall ensure that the ESRD pharmacy has received records 
confirming the completion of such training. 

(c) After the delivery of such products by the ESRD pharmacy, the ESRD pharmacy shall upon request therefor, make available 
to the prescribing practitioner documentation describing, in sufficient detail, the types and quantities of products dispensed and 



delivered by the ESRD pharmacy. The ESRD pharmacy shall also, upon request, make available to the prescribing practitioner 
documentation confirming shipment of such products and receipt thereof by the person with chronic kidney failure. 

(6) The licensed ESRD pharmacy shall comply with all applicable state and federal regulatory requirements and shall maintain 
in effect all applicable permits and licenses required to dispense and deliver legend drugs and/or devices included in the formulary 
described in this Section. 

(7) The ESRD pharmacy shall deliver products to a person with chronic kidney failure only upon receipt of a valid prescription 
from a prescribing practitioner specifying or including: 

(a) Documentation that the intended recipient of the products has been trained in home dialysis therapy and will require such 
products; 

(b) The duration of prescribing practitioner's order; and 
(c) The name and product code of each product prescribed and the quantity prescribed. 
(d) The prescription may indicate the person with chronic kidney failure shall have the right to request refills of legend drugs, 

devices or both, included in the schedule and described in the order for a period of one year. 

(8) The ESRD pharmacy shall assemble the products to be delivered pursuant to the prescribing practitioner's prescription. In 

assembling such products for delivery, the ESRD pharmacy shall take steps necessary to assure the following: 
(a) The code numbers and quantities of the products assembled match the code numbers identified in the prescribing 

practitioner's prescription; 
(b) With respect to any dated products, a minimum of three (3) ffill months of shelf-life remain; and 
(c) All cartons and other packaging are properly labeled as noted below: 
1. "Use as Directed" statement; 
2. The name and address of the person to whom the products will be delivered; 
3. The name of the prescribing practitioner; 
4. The name and address of the ESRD pharmacy location from which the products were shipped; 
5. The prescription number identifying the shipment to the order created by the prescribing practitioner; and 
6. Any special instructions regarding delivery dates or locations. 
7. The date after which the drug(s) and/or device(s) must be discarded. Notwithstanding any other rule, the ESRD pharmacy 

may use, in lieu of a discard after date, the manufactures expiration date when such is displayed in an unopened sealed package. 
(d) All cartons and related packaging shall be visually inspected to confirm compliance with the specifications in paragraph 

(8)(c). Compliance with the requirements set forth in paragraph (8)(c) shall be conducted by the consulting pharmacist or 
independently by not less than two employees of the ESRD pharmacy trained in the performance of the foregoing activities, each of 
whom shall acknowledge in writing their completion of such activities with respect to each group of products assembled for 
delivery. 

(9) The ESRD pharmacy permit holder shall assure through visual inspection and comparison of records that products 
assembled for delivery to persons with chronic kidney failure are consistent with the prescribing practitioner's order therefor. 

(10) The products ordered by the prescribing practitioner under this Rule shall be delivered by either the ESRD pharmacy or a 

carrier authorized by the ESRD pharmacy. 
(11) Upon delivery of the products by the ESRD pharmacy or its carrier to the person identified on the prescribing practitioner's 

order, the ESRD pharmacy or its carrier shall confirm receipt by the patient or the patient's designee that the number of units 
delivered equals the number of units identified on the appropriate documentation. Compliance with the foregoing requirements set 

forth above shall be conducted by an employee or agent of the ESRD pharmacy trained in the performance of such activities, who 
shall acknowledge in writing the delivery of the products and the completion of such activities with respect to each delivery. 

(12) In addition to the foregoing operation requirements, an ESRD pharmacy shall comply with the following: 
(a) The ESRD pharmacy license shall be displayed at each ESRD pharmacy location. 
(b) The Board of Pharmacy shall be notified in writing of the Consulting Pharmacist responsible, at the time of application for 

the permit, for supervising the ESRD pharmacy operations and within 10 days, if the Consultant Pharmacist of record changes. 
(c) The ESRD pharmacy's hours of business shall be posted. The ESRD pharmacy shall be open such hours as are necessary to 

safely and effectively dispense and deliver supplies to those persons designated by the applicable prescribing practitioner. An ESRD 
pharmacy shall provide twenty-four hour emergency and on-call service. 

(d) The ESRD pharmacy shall have sufficient space and storage capabilities as are necessary to carry out its operation. 



(e) All legend drugs and/or legend devices included in the formulary subject to this Rule shall be properly identified. 

(0 The ESRD pharmacy shall maintain a current copy of the Florida pharmacy laws and rules. 

(g) The ESRD pharmacy shall comply with patient counseling requirements of Rules 64B16-27.800-.810 and 64B16-27.820, 
F.A.C. 

(13) ESRD Pharmacy Application Requirements. An applicant for an ESRD pharmacy permit shall provide the Board of 
Pharmacy with a Policy and Procedure Manual setting forth in detail the operational guidelines of the applicant. The Policy and 
Procedure Manual shall include a Quality Assurance Program which monitors personnel qualifications, training and performance. 

(14) An ESRD pharmacy shall be under the control and supervision of licensed Consultant Pharmacist licensed under Section 
465.0125, F.S. The Consulting Pharmacist shall be responsible for the drug/device delivery system. 

(15) The Consultant Pharmacist of record for the ESRD Pharmacy shall be responsible for establishing a written protocol and 
Policy and Procedure Manual for the implementation of a delivery system to be utilized in compliance with the requirements of this 
Rule. 

(16) The Consultant Pharmacist shall inspect the permitted ESRD pharmacy on a monthly basis. 
(17) A copy of the ESRD pharmacy's Policy and Procedure Manual as provided above shall accompany the permit application, 

shall be kept within the ESRD Pharmacy, and shall be available for inspection by the Department of Health. Changes in the Policy 
and Procedure Manual shall be approved by the Consulting Pharmacist. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0125 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196, 465.022 FS. History—New 10-2 -94, Formerly 59X-28.850, Amended 9- 

20-99, 7-1 7-05, 6-24-08. 

64B16-28.860 Special Pharmacy — Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope Permit. 
(1 )(a) A Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope permit, as authorized by Section 465.0196, F. S., is required for pharmacies 

to compound patient specific enteral/parenteral preparations in conjunction with institutional pharmacy permits, provided 
requirements set forth herein are satisfied. Prior to engaging in a parenteral/enteral compounding pharmacy practice as described in 

this section, an entity shall obtain a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy permit. 
(b) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies and institutional pharmacy permits shall create and comply with 

Policy and Procedure Manuals that delineate duties and responsibilities of each entity, including the following provisions: 
1. When dispensing patient specific prescriptions provided by an institutional pharmacy permit, the Special Parenteral/Enteral 

Extended Scope pharmacy shall confirm accuracy of the prescription and dosage. 
2. The institutional pharmacy permit shall maintain records appropriate to ensure the provision of proper patient care. 
3. The institutional pharmacy permit designee shall inspect and log in all medicinal drugs provided by the Special 

Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
4. A pharmacist for the Class II institutional pharmacy shall provide drug utilization review and shall review each prescription 

order prior to transmission to the Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy. 
5. The Policy and Procedure Manual for a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy shall also meet the policy and 

procedure manual requirements of paragraph 64B 16-28. 820(3)(d), F.A.C. 
(c) Such Policy and Procedure manuals shall be made available to the Board or Department upon request. 
(2) Facilities obtaining this permit may also provide services described in paragraph 64B16-28.820(1)(a), F.A.C., without 

obtaining an additional permit. Pharmacy services and parenteral/enteral products provided by a Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended 
Scope pharmacy shall be limited to the compounding and/or dispensing of sterile: 

(a) Preparations for parental therapy, parenteral nutrition, and/or 
(b) Preparations for enteral feeding and sterile irrigation solutions, and/or 
(c) Preparations of cytotoxic or antineoplastic agents. 
(3) Facilities operating under this permit may provide all necessary supplies and delivery systems so that the medicinal drugs 

listed herein may be properly administered. 
(4) Pharmacy Environment. The compounding and dispensing of sterile parenteral/enteral prescription preparations within a 

Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacy shall be accomplished in a pharmacy environment subject to the pharmacy 
permit laws contained in Chapter 465, F.S., and in accordance with those requirements for the safe handling of drugs. Special 
Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope permittees shall comply with the requirements contained in subsections 64B 16-28.820(3) 
through (4), F.A.C., and the following: 



(a) Shall include an active and ongoing end product testing program to ensure stability, sterility, and quantitative integrity of 
finished prescriptions. 

(b) Shall insure each compounding process undergoes an initial and thereafter annual sterility validation utilizing media fill to 

ensure the integrity and validity of the compounding process. 
(5) Records. 
(a) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies shall comply with the record maintenance requirements as contained 

in Rule 64B16-28.140, F.A.C. 
(b) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies dispensing medicinal products to patients under the provisions of 

paragraph 64B16-28.820(1)(a), F.A.C., or to patients of Modified Class II institutional pharmacies under the provisions of Rule 
64Bl6-28.860, F.A.C., shall comply with the records, utilization review, and patient counseling requirements of Rules 64B16- 
27.800, 64Bl6-27.810 and 64B16-27.820, F.A.C. 

(c) Special Parenteral/Enteral Extended Scope pharmacies dispensing medicinal products to patients of Class II institutional 
pharmacies under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.860, F.A.C., shall be exempt from the records, utilization review, and patient 
counseling requirements of Rules 64B16-27.800, 64B16-27.810 and 64B16-27.820, F.A.C. 

(d) Compounding records shall be organized in such a manner as to include: lot number traceability of components used during 
compounding, documentation of any equipment used during compounding, documentation of staff performing compounding, and 
records recording ultimate dispensing of the compounded product. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196, 465.022 FS. History—New 9-4-96, Formerly 59X-28.860, Amended 7-1 7-05. 

64B16-28.870 Special-ALF. 
The Special-ALF permit is an optional facility license for those Assisted Living Facilities providing a drug delivery system utilizing 
medicinal drugs provided in unit dose packaging. All medicinal drugs must be maintained in individual prescription containers for 
the individual patient. Medicinal drugs may not be dispensed on the premises. Medicinal drugs dispensed to patients of Special-ALF 
permits may be returned to the dispensing pharmacy's stock under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.118, F.A.C. Dispensed 
controlled substances that have been discontinued shall be disposed of under the provisions of Rule 64B16-28.301, F.A.C. 
Medicinal drugs dispensed to the residents of a Special-ALF permit shall meet the labeling requirements of Rule 64B16-28.502 and 
paragraph 64B 16-28.402(1 )(h), F.A.C. Each facility holding a Special-ALF permit shall designate a consultant pharmacist of record 
to ensure compliance with the laws and rules governing the permit. The Board office shall be notified in writing within 10 days of 
any change in the consultant pharmacist of record. The consultant pharmacist of record shall be responsible for the preparation of the 
Policy and Procedure Manual required by subsection 64B16-28.800(2), F.A.C. Policy and Procedure Manuals must provide for the 
appropriate storage conditions and security of the medicinal drugs stored at the facility. The consultant pharmacist of record shall 
inspect the facility and prepare a written report to be filed at the permitted facility at least monthly. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0196 FS. History—New 2-23-98. 

64B16-28.900 Definitions Nuclear Pharmacy. 
(1) A "nuclear pharmacy" is a pharmacy which provides radiopharmaceutical services. 
(2) A "nuclear pharmacist" is a pharmacist who has met the training qualifications as described in Rule 64Bl6-28.903, F.A.C., 

and has been licensed by the Board of Pharmacy. 
(3) A "radiopharmaceutical service" shall include, but shall not be limited to, the procurement, storage, preparation, labeling, 

quality assurance testing, distribution, record keeping and disposal of radiopharmaceuticals. 
(4) A "radiopharmaceutical" is any substance defined as a drug by section 201(g)(l) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic 

Act which exhibits spontaneous disintegration of unstable nuclei with the emission of nuclear particles or photons and includes any 
such drug which is intended to be made radioactive. This definition includes nonradioactive reagent kits and nuclide generators 
which are intended to be used in the preparation of any such substance but does not include drugs such as carbon-containing 
compounds or potassium-containing salts which contain trace quantities of naturally occurring radionuclides. 

(5) "Radiopharmaceutical quality assurance" includes, but is not limited to, the performance of appropriate chemical, biological 
and physical tests on radiopharmaceuticals, and the interpretation of the resulting data to determine their suitability for use in 

humans and animals, including internal test assessment, authentication of product history and the keeping of proper records. 
(6) "Authentication of product history" includes, but is not limited to, the purchasing source, the ultimate fate, and 



intermediate handling of any component of a radiopharmaceutical or other drug. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005 FS. Law Implemented (14), 465.022 ('1) (e) FS. History—New 1-7-76, Formerly 21S-3.01, Amended 4-4-88, 

Formerly 21S-3.001, Amended 7-31-91, 4-15-92, 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-28. 900, 61F10-28.900, 59X-28.900, Amended 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.901 Nuclear Pharmacy General Requirements. 
The process employed by any permit holder in this state concerning the handling of radioactive materials must involve appropriate 
procedures for the purchase, receipt, storage, manipulation, compounding, distribution and disposal of radioactive materials. In order 
to insure the public health and safety in this respect, a nuclear pharmacy in this state shall meet the following general requirements: 

(1) Each nuclear pharmacy shall designate a nuclear pharmacist as the prescription department manager who shall be 
responsible for compliance with all laws and regulations, both state and federal pertaining to radiopharmaceuticals and 
radiopharmaceutical services. A nuclear pharmacist must personally supervise the operation of only one nuclear pharmacy during all 

times when radiopharmaceutical services are being performed. 
(2) The nuclear pharmacy area shall be secured from access by unauthorized personnel. 
(3) Each nuclear pharmacy shall maintain accurate records of the acquisition, inventory, distribution, and disposal of all 

radiopharmaceuticals. 
(4) All nuclear pharmacies shall provide a secured radioactive storage and decay area. 
(5) Nuclear pharmacies shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations of federal and state agencies for the procurement, 

secure storage, inventory, preparation, distribution and disposal of radiopharmaceuticals and other drugs. 
(6) Radiopharmaceuticals are to be distributed only upon a prescription order from an authorized licensed medical practitioner 

or through the practitioner's agent. 

(7) A nuclear pharmacist may transfer radioactive materials in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
(8) A nuclear pharmacist upon receiving an oral prescription order for a radiopharmaceutical shall immediately have the 

prescription order reduced to writing. The pharmacist may delegate this duty to a registered pharmacy technician only as authorized 
by Rule 64Bl6-27.410, F.A.C. The prescription order shall contain at least the following: 

(a) The name of the user or his agent; 
(b) The date of distribution and the time of administration of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(c) The name of the procedure; 
(d) The name of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(e) The dose or quantity of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(f) The serial number assigned to the prescription order for the radiopharmaceutical; 
(g) Any specific instructions; and 
(h) The initials of the person who received the prescription order. 
(i) The patient's name must be obtained and recorded prior to dispensing, if the prescription order is for a therapeutic or blood 

product radiopharmaceutical. 
(9) The immediate outer container shield of a radiopharmaceutical to be dispensed shall be labeled with: 
(a) The name of and address of the pharmacy; 
(b) The name of the prescriber; 
(c) The date of the original filling; 
(d) The standard radiation symbol; 
(e) The words "Caution Radioactive Material"; 
(f) The name of the procedure; 
(g) The prescription order number of the radiopharmaceutical; 
(h) The radionuclide and chemical form; 
(i) The amount of radioactivity and the calibration date and time; 
(j) The expiration date and time; 
(k) The volume if a liquid; 
(1) The number of items or weight, if a solid; 
(m) The number of ampules or vials, if a gas; 

(n) Molybdenum 99 content to USP limits, applies only to TC 99M products; and 



(o) The name of the patient or the words "Physician's Use Only" in the absence of a patient name. If the prescription order is for 
a therapeutic or blood-product radiopharmaceutical, the patient's name must be obtained and recorded prior to dispensing. The 
requirements of this subsection shall be met when the name of the patient is readily retrievable from the physician upon demand. 

(p) The initials of the pharmacist who dispensed the medication. 
(10) The immediate inner container label of a radiopharmaceutical to be distributed shall be labeled with: 
(a) The standard radiation symbol; 
(b) The words "Caution Radioactive Material"; 
(c) The radionuclide; 
(d) The chemical form; 
(e) The prescription order number of the radiopharmaceutical. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003(14), 465.0126, 465.0 14 FASt History—New 1-7-76, Formerly 21S-3.03, 

Amended 12-11-86, 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-3.003, 21S-28.901, 61F10-28.901, Amended 2-26-95, Formerly 59X-28.901, Amended 4-5-05, 1-1-10. 

64B16-28.902 Nuclear Pharmacy — Minimum Requirements. 
In order to insure compliance with the general safety requirements as previously set forth above, the following minimum 
requirements shall be met by a nuclear pharmacy. These requirements are in addition to the general requirements for space and 
equipment for other types of pharmacies, the requirements of the Department of Health for the control of radiation hazards, and the 
applicable requirements of the Federal Food and Drug Administration. Such minimum permit requirements are set forth as follows: 

(1) Space: 
(a) The area for the storage, compounding, distribution and disposal of radiopharmaceuticals shall be adequate to completely 

separate such radioactive pharmaceuticals from pharmacy areas which contain non-radioactive medicinal drugs; 
(b) The Hot lab, storage area, and compounding and dispensing area shall be a minimum of 150 square feet. 

(2) Equipment: 
(a) Fume hood with appropriate air sampling equipment; 
(b) Shielded radiation containment drawing station; 
(c) Dose calibrator; 
(d) Well scintillation counters; 
(e) Area rate meters; 
(f) Geiger-Mueller (GM) Survey meters; 

(g) Refrigerator; 
(h) Microscope; 
(i) Syringe shields; and 
(j) Personnel radiation detection devices. 
(3) Supplies: 

(a) Syringes and vials required to perform practice; 
(b) Disposable gloves and protective lab coats; 
(c) Appropriate supplies to ensure sterile practices for I.V. solutions; 
(d) Appropriate supplies to perform thin layer chromotography; 
(e) Lead transport shields for syringes and vials. No person shall utilize reusable unit dose transport containers for radioactive 

doses without either an effective process to decontaminate the transport container of blood and other biohazardous substances or an 
effective mechanism to avoid contamination of the transport container. No person shall re-use a unit dose transport container that 
remains contaminated with blood or other biohazardous subtances. Any unit dose transport container that is returned with the 

tamper-evident seal broken and the unit dose syringe included shall be considered to be contaminated. 
(f) D.O.T. Type 7A approved transport containers and other labels and supplies for shipping radioactive materials. 
(4) Current references: 
(a) Chapter 465, F.S.; 
(b) Chapter 404, F.S.; 
(c) Chapter 893, F.S.; 

(d) Chapters 64B16-26 and 64B16-28, F.A.C., Rules of the Florida Board of Pharmacy; 



(e) Chapter 64E-5, F.A.C., Rules of the Department of Health; 
(f) Title 10 C.F.R., Code of Federal Regulations, FDA Regulations; 

(g) Title 49 C.F.R., Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation Regulations; 
(h) United States Pharmacopeia/National Formulary; 
(i) USP-DI. 

It shall be acceptable, in lieu of an actual hard copy, to maintain these materials in a readily available electronic data format. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.0193, 465.022(1) FS. History—New 1-7-76, Formerly 21S-3. 04, Amended 12- 

11-86, 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-3.004, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.902, 61F10-28.902, Amended 2-26-95, Formerly 59X-28.902, Amended 

4-26-01, 4-5-05. 

64B16-28.903 Training Qualifications. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.003 (14), 465.0126 FS. History—New 4-17-76, Amended 4-8-80, 6-23-83, 

Formerly 21S-3.05, Amended 8-11-86, 4-4-88, Formerly 21S-3.005, Amended 7-31-91, Formerly 21S-28.903, 61F10-28.903, Amended 6-12-96, 

Formerly 59X-28.903, Repealed 1-18-05. 

64B16-28.904 Nuclear Pharmacist — Continuing Education. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.0126, 465.022 FS. Law Implemented 465.009(5), 465.0126 FS. History—New 10-28-91, Formerly 21S-28.904, 

61F10-28.904, 59X-28.904, Amended 1 -12-03, 1 0-19-03, Repealed 1 -18-05. 



CHAPTER 64B16-29 
ANIMAL CONTROL SHELTER PERMITS 

64B 16-29.001 Definition 
64B 16-29.002 General Requirements 
64B 16-29.003 Drug Requirement (Repealed) 
64B 16-29.004 Records 
64B 16-29.0041 Record Maintenance Systems for Animal Shelter Permits 
64B16-29.005 Storage 

64B16-29.OO1 Definition. 
An "animal control shelter" is a county or municipal animal control agency or Humane Society registered with the Secretary of State 
which holds a modified Class II Institutional Pharmacy permit issued by the Department of Health pursuant to certification of 
compliance with Rule 64B16-29.002, F.A.C., by the Board of Pharmacy. An animal control shelter is issued a pharmacy permit for 
the sole purpose of obtaining the drugs, sodium pentobarbital and sodium pentobarbital with lidocaine, for euthanization of animals 
within their lawfhl possession. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 01, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14.001, 21S-29.001, 61F10-29.001, 59X-29.001. 

64B16-29.002 General Requirements. 
(1) Application for an Animal Control Shelter Pharmacy permit shall be made on Board of Pharmacy approved form DOH- 

MQA/PH/107 "Animal Control Pharmacy Permit Application and Information," effective October 2009, which is incorporated by 
reference. To obtain an application, contact the Board of Pharmacy at 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, FL 32399- 
3254, or (850) 488-0595, or download the application from the board's website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/pharmacy. 

(a) The application fee for animal shelters applying for the Modified Class II Institutional permit shall be fifty dollars ($50). 
(b) The biennial permit renewal fee for animal shelters holding the Modified Class II Institutional permit shall be fifly dollars 

($50). 
(2) The applicant shall apply to the Drug Enforcement Administration, United States Department of Justice, by the appropriate 

DEA form, for Registration as a practitioner, to be designated as "Animal Shelter" on the appropriate DEA form. 

(3) The applicant shall be certified by the Board of Pharmacy to the Department as having met the requirements of this rule 
chapter prior to issuance of a permit. The certification process shall require prior inspection of the facility by authorized persons. 

(4) The consultant pharmacist requirement of Section 465 .019(5), F.S., is waived as being inapplicable to this special restricted 
permit. 

(5) Authorized employees of the Department shall inspect animal control shelters not less than twice per year to determine 
compliance with this rule. 

(6) Each animal control shelter permittee shall designate an on-site manager of the shelter. The on-site manager and permittee 
shall notify the Department within ten (10) days of any change in the on-site manager of the shelter. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 02, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14.002, Amended 10-1 -92, Formerly 21S-29.002, Amended 7-18-94, Formerly 61F10-29.002, 59X-29.002, Amended 5-11-10. 

64B16-29.003 Drug Requirement. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 03, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14. 003, 21S-29. 003, 61F1 0-29.003, 59X-29. 003, Repealed 3-28-12. 

64B16-29.004 Records. 
Animal control shelter permittees shall maintain records of purchases and administration of sodium pentobarbital and sodium 
pentobarbital with lidocaine for a period of not less than two (2) years. Records of administration shall contain: 

(1) The date of use; 
(2) Identification of the animal; 



(3) The amount of the drug used; 
(4) The signature of the person administering the drug; 

(5) The signature of the on-site manager the accuracy of the administration of sodium pentobarbital and sodium 
pentobarbital with lidocaine not less than once per month; and 

(6) The signature of the on-site manager to the accuracy of the records. These records are subject to audit by the Drug 
Enforcement Administration or authorized employees of the Department to determine adequacy, accuracy and validity of the record 
keeping. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 04, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14. 004, 21S-29. 004, 61F1 0-29.004, 59X-29. 004. 

64B16-29.0041 Record Maintenance Systems for Animal Shelter Permits. 
(1) General requirements for records maintained in an electronic system. 
(a) If a permitted animal shelter's data processing system is not in compliance with the Board's data processing requirements, 

the facility must maintain a manual recordkeeping system meeting the requirements of Rule 64B 16-29.004, F.A.C. 

(b) Requirements for back-up systems. The facility shall maintain a back-up copy of information stored in the data processing 
system using disk, tape, or other electronic back-up and up-date this back-up copy on a regular basis, at least monthly, to assure that 
data is not lost due to system failure. 

(c) Change or discontinuance of a data processing system. 
1. Records of dispensed and returned medicinal drugs. A permitted animal shelter that changes or discontinues use of a data 

processing system must: 

a. Transfer the records to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records to a printout which contains the same information as required on the audit trail printout as specified in Rule 

64Bl6-29.004, F.A.C. 
2. Other records. A pharmacy that changes or discontinues use of a data processing system must: 

a. Transfer the records to the new data processing system; or 
b. Purge the records to a printout which contains all of the information required on the original document. 
3. Maintenance of purged records. Information purged from a data processing system must be maintained by the pharmacy for 

two years from the date of initial entry into the data processing system. 
(d) Loss of data. The shelter manager for permitted animal shelters shall report to the Board in writing any significant loss of 

information from the data processing system within 10 days of discovery of the loss. 
(2) The permitted animal shelter shall maintain a system(s) which can produce the information required in Rule 64B 16-29.004, 

F.A.C., for the preceding two years. The information required in this paragraph shall be supplied by the permitted animal shelter 
within seven working days if requested. 

(3) Failure to maintain records. Failure to provide records set out in this subsection, either on site or within 7 working days for 
whatever reason, constitutes failure to keep and maintain records. 

(4) Data processing system downtime. In the event that a permitted animal shelter which uses a data processing system 
experiences system downtime, the permitted animal shelter must have an auxiliary procedure which will ensure that all data is 

retained. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 465.0155, 465.022, 828.055 'S. Law Implemented 465.019, 465.022, 465.02 6, 893.07, 828.055 FS. History—New 

3-31-05. 

64B16-29.OO5 Storage. 
Sodium pentobarbital and sodium pentobarbital with lidocaine shall be stored in a safe place. At a minimum, this shall require that 
the drugs be kept in a securely locked cabinet within a locked storage room. Schedule II order forms are to be stored under the same 
conditions. Records of purchases of sodium pentobarbital and sodium pentobarbital with lidocaine shall be maintained in a separate 
file from the records of administration. The records of purchases and administration shall be maintained at the location. 

Rulemaking Authority 465.005, 828.055 FS. Law Implemented 828.055 FS. History—New 10-17-79, Formerly 21S-14. 05, Amended 4-24-88, 

Formerly 21S-14. 005, 21S-29. 005, 61F1 0-29.005, 59X-29. 005. 



CHAPTER 64B16-30 
DISCIPLINARY GUIDELINES 

64B16-30.001 
64B 16-30.002 
64B 16-30.003 
64B16-30.0035 

Disciplinary Guidelines; Range of Penalties; Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances 
Minor Violations 
Citations 
Mediation 

64B16-30.OO1 Disciplinary Guidelines; Range of Penalties; Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances. 
(1) The board sets forth below a range of disciplinary guidelines from which disciplinary penalties will be imposed upon 

licensees guilty of violating Chapter 465, F.S. The purpose of the disciplinary guidelines is to give notice to licensees of the range of 
penalties which will normally be imposed upon violations of particular provisions of Chapter 465, F.S. The term license means any 
permit, registation, certificate, or license, including a provisional license, issued by the Department. The minimum penalty range is 

based upon a first time single count violation of each provision listed. The maximum penalty range is based upon multiple or 
repeated violations of the same provision of Chapter 465, F.S., or the rules promulgated thereto. All penalties at the upper range of 
the sanctions set forth in the guidelines, i.e., suspension, revocation, etc., include lesser penalties, i.e., fine, probation or reprimand 
which may be included in the final penalty at the board's discretion. Probation may be subject to conditions, including restriction 
from practice in certain settings, restricting the licensee to working only under designated conditions or in certain settings, requiring 
continuing or remedial education, or any other restriction found to be necessary for the protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare. In addition to any other discipline imposed under these guidelines, the board shall assess costs relating to the investigation 
and prosecution of the case. 

(2) The following disciplinary guidelines shall be followed by the board in imposing disciplinary penalties upon licensees and 
permittees for violation of the below mentioned statutes and rules. For the purposes of this rule, the descriptions of the violations are 

abbrieviated and the full statute or rule cited should be consulted to determine the prohibited conduct. 
PENALTY RANGE 
MINIMUM MAXIMUM 
$10,000 fine for each count $10,000 fine for each count and 
and Revocation Revocation 

VIOLATION 
(a) Obtaining a license or 
permit by misrepresentation, 
fraud or error 
(Section 465.016(l)(a), F.S.) 
(Section 465.023(l)(a), F.S.) 

(b) Procuring a license or permit 
by false representation 
(Section 465.016(l)(b), F.S.) 
(Section 465.023(l)(b), F.S. 

$10,000 fine for each count 
and Revocation 

$10,000 fine for each count and 
Revocation 

(c) Permitting unlicensed 
persons to practice 
pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(l)(c), F.S.) 

$2,500 fine and 12 hours Laws & 

Rules course or Multistate Pharmacy 
Jurisprudence Exam (MPJE) 

Revocation 

(d) Being unfit or 
incompetent to practice 
pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(1)(d), (m), F.S.) 

$250 fine, indefinite suspension 
with PEN review and board 
appearance 

Revocation or, at the licensee's 
discretion, voluntarily 
relinquishment 
with reinstatement under the 

terms and conditions 
approved by the board 

(e) Violating laws 



governing the practice of 
pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(l)(e), F.S.) 
(Section 465 .023(l)(c), F.S.) 

1. Chapter 465, F.S.: 

a. Failure to supervise $250 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
registered pharmacy technician probation and 12 hour Laws 
(Section 465 .014, F.S.) & Rules Course or MPJE 

b. Operating a pharmacy $500 per month to maximum Revocation 
that is not registered of $5,000 (penalty will require 
(Section 465.015(1)(a), F.S.) permittee to renew permit or 

cease practice) 

c. Operating a pharmacy $5,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
where an unlicensed and probation 
unsupervised person 
practices pharmacy 
(Section 465 .015(l)(b), F.S.) 

d. Making a false or $10,000 fine for each count $10,000 fine 
fraudulent statement to the for each count and 
board Revocation 
(Section 465.0 15(2)(a), F.S.) 

e. Practicing pharmacy as an Fine based on length of time in Revocation 
inactive licensee practice while inactive; 
(Section 465.0 15(2)(b), F.S.) $500/month 

f. Selling or dispensing 
drugs without a prescription 
(Section 465 .015(2)(c), F.S.) 

(i) Non-scheduled legend $1,500 fine Revocation 
drugs 

(ii) Scheduled (controlled $5,000 fine and Revocation 
substances) legend drugs one (1) year probation 

g. Selling samples or 
complimentary drugs 
(Section 465.0 15(2)(d), F.S.) 

(i) Non-scheduled legend drugs $1,500 fine Revocation 

(ii) Scheduled (controlled $5,000 fine and one (1) year probation Revocation 
Substances) legend drugs 



h. Failure to notify the board of or not 
to have a prescription department 
manager or consultant pharmacist 
Sections 465.018, .019, .0193, .0196, 

or .0197, F.S. 
(Section 465.022(10), (11), F.S.) 

(i) Failure to notify Fine based on length of time $7,500 maximum (penalty 
(Section 465 .018, F.S.) prior to notifying board. $500 requires notification or 

per month ceasing practice) 

(ii) Failure to have Fine based on length of time prior to Revocation 
prescription department notifying board, $750 per month and 
manager or consultant one (1) year probation 
pharmacist of record 

i. Failure to comply with $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules $2,500 fine 
required substitution of Course or MPJE 
legend drug requirements 
(Sections 465 .025(2), (3), (4), F.S.) 

j. Failure to follow negative $1,000 fine and 12 hours Laws & $2,500 fine and 
formulary requirements Rules Course or MPJE one (1) year 
(Section 465.025(6), F.S.) probation 
(Rule 64B16-27.500, F.A.C.) 

k. Failure to follow $500 fine $1,000 fine and 
emergency prescription one (1) year 
requirements probation 
(Section 465.0275, F.S.) 

1. Engage in prohibited $1,500 fine Revocation 
rebate scheme 
(Section 465.185, F.S.) 

m. Failure to comply with pharmacist 
dispensing requirements 
(Section 465.186, F.S.) 

(i) Failure to follow procedure, $500 fine $1,000 fine, one (1) year 
but dispense drug appearing on probation and suspension 
formulary of right to dispense 
(Section 465.186(3), F.S.) 
(Rule 64B16-27.210, F.A.C.) 

(ii) Dispensing drug not on $1,500 fine Revocation 
the formulary 
(Section 465.186(2), F.S.) 



(Rules 64B16-27.220, .230, F.A.C.) 

2. Chapter 499, F.S. 

a. Adulteration of a drug $1,000 fine Revocation 
(Section 499.005(2), (3), F.S.) 
(Section 499.006, F.S.) 

b. Misbranding a drug 
(Section 499.005(2), (3), F.S.) 
(Section 499.007, F.S.) 

(i) Incomplete or inaccurate $250 fine and 12 hour Laws & $2,500 fine and one (1) 

labeling Rules Course or MPJE year probation 
(Section 499.007, F.S.) 
(Rule 64B16-28.108, F.A.C.) 

(ii) Fraudulent misbranding $2,500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
of legend drugs suspension 
(Section 499.007, F.S.) 

c. Prescriptions Drug Pedigree $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules Revocation 
Course or MPJE 

d. Recordkeeping requirement $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules Revocation 
Course or MPJE 

e. Storage of drugs $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Revocation 
Course or MPJE 

3. Chapter 893, F.S. 

(Controlled substances) 

a. Filling a prescription for $1,500 fine $5,000 fine and one (1) 
controlled substances that year probation 
does not meet the requirements of 
Chapter 893, F.S. 

(Section 893.04(1)(b), F.S.) 

b. Failing to retain prescription $1,000 fine Revocation 
records for two (2) years 
(Section 893.04(1)(d), F.S.) 

c. Failing to appropriately $250 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules $2,500 fine and one (1) 

label Course or MPJE year probation 
(Section 893.04(l)(e), F.S.) 

d. Dispensing a Schedule II $5,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
drug inappropriately with a probation 



non-written prescription 
(Section 893.04(1)(f), F.S.) 

e. Inappropriate refilling of $1,750 fine and one (1) year One (1) year suspension 
Schedule III, IV, or V drugs probation 
(Section 893.04(1)(g), F.S.) 

f. Receiving controlled substances $2,500 fine Revocation 
without an appropriate order 
form 
(Section 893.06(1), F.S.) 

g. Unlawful possession of $2,500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
controlled substances probation 
(Section 893 .06(2), F.S.) 

h. Failure to take a biennial $1,000 fine $2,500 fine and one (1) year 
inventory probation 
(Section 893.07(1)(a), (2), (3), 
(4), (5), F.S.) 

i. Failure to maintain a $1,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
complete and accurate probation 
record of controlled 
substances 
(Section 893.07(1)(b), (2), (3), 

(4), (5), F.S.) 

j. Dispensing controlled $5,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
substances in other than probation 
good faith 
(Section 893.08(3)(b), F.S.) 

k. Inappropriate selling of Schedule V $1,500 fine and one (1) year One (1) year suspension 
controlled substance probation 
(Section 893.08(3)(c), F.S.) 

1. Unlawful possession of $5,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
controlled substance probation 
(Section 893.13, F.S.) 

4. Violation of Federal Drug $500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
Abuse Act 21 U. S. C. 821 probation 
et seq. 

(f) Criminal conviction related to 

pharmacy 
(Section 465.016(1)(f), F.S.) 
(Section 465.023(1)(d), F.S.) 





Rule 64B16-27.103, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-27.104, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-26.400, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-26.2032, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.1081, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-26.301, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.114, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-27.105, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-27.21l, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.113, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.202l, F.A.C. 
Rule 64B16-28.603, F.A.C. 

b. Rule 64B16-28.102, F.A.C. 

c. Rule 64Bl6-27.l01, F.A.C. 
(counterfeit drugs) 

d. Rule 64B16-28.110, F.A.C. 
(outdated pharmaceuticals) 

e. Rules 64Bl6-28.30l, 
64Bl6-28.303, F.A.C. 
(destruction of controlled 
substances) (violations) 

f Rule 64B16-26.300, F.A.C 
(Serving as consultant pharmacist 
without being licensed as a 

consultant pharmacist) 

g. Rule 64B16-28.l40, F.A.C. 
(Data processing systems) 

h. Rule 64B16-28.120, F.A.C. 
(Location of legend drugs) 

i. Practicing nuclear pharmacy 
without being licensed as a 

nuclear pharmacist 
(Rule 64B16-26.303, F.A.C.) 

j. Failure to follow technical 
requirements 
(Rules 64Bl6-28.901 and 
64Bl6-28.902, F.A.C.) 

Suspension until compliance 

$1,000 fine for dispensing 

$500 fine for possession $1,000 
fine for dispensing 

$500 fine and 12 hour Laws & 

Rules or MPJE 

$500 per month up to $5,000 fine 

(fine based upon the length of time 
the person is serving as a consultant 
without being licensed as a consultant 
pharmacist) 

$500 per month up to $5,000 fine 

(fine based upon the length of time 
the person is practicing without 
being licensed as a nuclear pharmacist) 

One (1) year probation and $1,000 
fine 

Revocation 

Revocation 

k. Rules 64B16-28.202 and $1,500 fine Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

Revocation 

$1,000 fine 

$1,000 fine 



64B16-28.203, F.A.C. 
(transfer of prescription files and 
drugs) 

1. Failure to complete the required 
continuing education during the 
biennial licensure period. 
(Rule 64B16-26.103, F.A.C.) 

1. Failure to complete less than ten $500 fine S 1,500 fine 

(10) hours 

2. Failure to complete ten (10) or more $1,000 fine $2,500 fine 
hours 
In addition, licensees shall take 
two additional hours of continuing 
edcuation for each of the continuing 
education deficiencies. Said hours 
shall not count for continuing 
education renewal requirements for 
the next biennium. 

m. Failure to maintain program $500 fine Revocation 
requirements for certification, 
training, or continuing education 
programs or providers. 
(Rule 64B16-26.60l, F.A.C.) 

n. Failure to retain continuing $250 fine $1,500 fine 
education records. 
(Rule 64B16-26.603, F.A.C.) 

o. Failure to practice in accordance 
with established practice standards. 
(Rules 64Bl6-27.lOOl, .104, F.A.C.) 

1. Pharmacist $500 fine Revocation 

2. Pharmacy Intern $250 fine Revocation 

3. Permittee $500 fine Revocation 

p. Failure to have current policies $500 fine Revocation 
and procedures. 
(Rules 64Bl6-28.141, .450, F.A.C.) 

q. Failure to have or maintain $500 fine and 12 hours Laws & Rules MJPE Revocation 
standards for an automated 
pharmacy system in a community 



pharmacy. 
(Rule 64B16-28.141, F.A.C.) 

r. Failure to have or maintain $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules or MJPE Revocation 
standards for a central 
fill pharmacy. 
(Rule 64B16-28.450, F.A.C.) 

s. Failure to have or maintain standards $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules or MJPE 
for an institutional pharmacy. 
(Rules 64B16-28.602, .6021, .605, .606, 

.702, F.A.C.) 

t. Failuare to maintain or have standards $500 fine and 12 hour Laws & Rules or MJPE 
for a special pharmacy. 
(Rules 64B16-28.800, .8 10, .820, .840, 

.850, .860, .870, F.A.C.) 

u. Failure to maintain standards for 
animal control shelters $500 Fine Revocation 

2. Violation of orders of $2,500 fine and Revocation 
Board or Department one (1) year probation 

(1) License disciplined by Same penalty as imposed in other 
another jurisdiction jurisdiction or as closely as possible 
(Section 465.016(l)(h), F.S.) to penalties set forth in Florida 

Statutes 

(m) Failure to comply with $750 fine $2,500 fine and, 
Board's rule on patient one year probation 
counseling 
(Rules 64Bl6-27.800, .8 10, 

.820, F.A.C.) 

(n) Abandoning or allowing permit Revocation Revocation 
to become null and void after notice 
of disciplinary proceedings. 
(Section 465 .018(3), F.S.) 

(o) Violating 456.072, F.S. 

1. Making misleading, $1,500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
deceptive, or fraudulent probation 
representations in or related 
to the practice of the 

licensee's profession. 

2. Intentionally violating $2,500 fine and two (2) years Revocation 



any rule adopted by the probation 
Board or the Department. 

3. Being convicted or found 
guilty of, or entering a plea 
of guilty or nob contendere to, 
regardless of adjudication, a 

crime in any jurisdiction 
which relates to the practice 
of, or the ability to practice, 
a licensee's profession. 

(i) Misdemanor $1,000 fine Revocation 

(ii) Felony $3,000 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
probation 

4. Failing to comply with $500 fine $1,000 fine 
the educational course 
requirements for human 
immunodeficiency virus and 
acquired immune deficiency 
syndrome, or medical errors. 

5. Having a license or the Same penalty as imposed in other 
authority to practice the jurisdiction or as closely as 

regulated profession possible to penalties for 
revoked, suspended, or similar violation 
otherwise acted against, 
including the denial of 
licensure, by the licensing 
authority of any jurisdiction, 
including its agencies or 
subdivisions, for a violation 
that would constitute a 

violation under Florida law. 

The licensing authority's 
acceptance of a 

relinquishment of licensure, 
stipulation, consent order, or 
other settlement, offered in 

response to or in 
anticipation of the filing of 
charges against the license, 
shall be construed as action 
against the license. 

6. Having been found liable $3,000 fine Revocation 
in a civil proceeding for 



knowingly filing a false 
report or complaint with the 

Department against another 
licensee. 

7. Attempting to obtain, Revocation or denial of license 
obtaining, or renewing a application 
license to practice a 

profession by bribery, by 
fraudulent 
misrepresentation, or 
through an error of the 
Department or the Board. 

8. Except as provided in $500 fine and one (1) year Revocation 
Section 465 .016, F.S., failing probation 
to report to the Department 
any person who the licensee 
knows is in violation of this 
part, the chapter regulating 
the alleged violator, or the 
rules of the Department or 
the Board. 

9. Aiding, assisting, $2,000 fine Revocation 
procuring, employing, or 
advising any unlicensed 
person or entity to practice a 

profession contrary to this 
part, the chapter regulating 
the profession, or the rules 
of the Department or the 
Board. 

10. Failing to perform any $2,000 fine Revocation 
statutory or legal obligation 
placed upon a licensee. 

11. Making or filing a report $2,500 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
which the licensee knows to probation 
be false, intentionally or 
negligently failing to file a 

report or record required by 
state or federal law, or 
willfully impeding or 
obstructing another person 
to do so. Such reports or 
records shall include only 
those that are signed in the 



capacity of a licensee. 

12. Making deceptive, $10,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation $10,000 fine 
untrue, or fraudulent probation and one (1) year suspension 
representations in or related 
to the practice of a 

profession or employing a 

trick or a scheme in or 
related to the practice of a 

profession. 

13. Exercising influence on $3,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
the patient or client for the probation 
purpose of financial gain of 
the licensee or a third party. 

14. Practicing or offering to $2,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
practice beyond the scope probation 
permitted by law or 
accepting and performing 
professional responsibilities 
the licensee knows, or has 
reason to know, the licensee 
is not competent to perform. 

15. Delegating or contracting $2,000 fine and two (2) years Revocation 
for the performance of probation 
professional responsibilities by 
a person when the licensee 
delegating or contracting for 
performance of such 
responsibilities knows, or 
has reason to know, such 
person is not qualified by 
training, experience, and 
authorization when required 
to perform them. 

16. Violating any provision $1,000 fine Revocation 
of this part, the applicable 
professional practice act, a 

rule of the Department or 
the Board, or a lawful order 
of the Department or the 
Board, or failing to comply 
with a lawfully issued 
subpoena of the Department. 

17. Improperly interfering $2,500 fine and two (2) years Revocation 



with an investigation or probation 
inspection authorized by 
statute, or with any 
disciplinary proceeding. 

18. Failing to report to the $1,000 fine Revocation 
board in writing within 30 

days after the licensee has 

been convicted or found 
guilty or entered a plea of 
nob contendere to, 

regardless of adjudication, 
a crime in any jurisdiction. 

19. Testing positive for any $1,500 fine PRN evaluvation and Revocation 
drug, as defined in Section two (2) years probation or compliance 
112.0455, F.S., on any with PRN contract 
confirmed preemployment 
or employer ordered drug 
screening when the 

practitioner does not have 
a lawful prescription and 
legitimate medical reason 
for using such drug. 

20. Being terminated from Suspension until successful Revocation 
or failing to successfully completion or receipt of written 
complete an impaired confirmation of compliance with 
practitioners treatment ongoing treatment and a fine of 
program. up to $1,000. 
(Section 456.072(1)(hh), F.S.) 

21. Being convicted of, or Revocation and a fine of $10,000, 
entering a plea of guilty or or in the case of application for 
nob contendere to any licensure, denial of license. 
misdemeanor or felony, 
regardless of adjudication, 
under 18 USC s. 669, 

ss. 285-287, s. 371, s. 1001, 

s. 1035,s. 1341,s. 1343, 

s. 1347,s. 1349, or s. 1518, 

or 42 USC ss. 1320a-7b, 
relating to the Medicaid program. 
(Section 456.072(1)(ii), F.S.) 

22. Failing to remit the sum owed to From a letter of concern to probation, From a reprimand to 

the state for overpayment from the and a fine of $500 to $5,000. revocation, and a fine of 
Medicaid program pursuant to a $2,500 to $5,000. 
final order, judgment, or settlement. 



(Section 456.072(1)(jj), F.S.) 

23. Being terminated from the state From a letter of concern to From a reprimand to 

Medicaid program, or any other suspension, and a fine of S 1,000 revocation, and a fine of 
state Medicaid program, or the to $5,000. $5,000 to $10,000. 
federal Medicare program. 
(Section 456.072(1)(kk), F.S.) 

24. Being convicted of, or entering Revocation and a fine of $10,000, 
into a plea of guilty or nob contendere or in the case of application for 
to any misdemeanor or felony, licensure, denial of license. 
regardless of adjudication, which 
relates to health care fraud. 
(Section 456.072(1)(ll), F.S.) 

(3) The board shall be entitled to deviate from the above-mentioned guidelines upon a showing of aggravating or mitigating 
circumstances by clear and convincing evidence presented to the board prior to the imposition of a final penalty. The fact that an 
Administrative Law Judge of the Division of Administrative Hearings may or may not have been aware of the below-mentioned 
aggravating or mitigating circumstances prior to a recommendation of penalty in a Recommended Order shall not obviate the duty of 
the board to consider aggravating and mitigating circumstances brought to its attention prior to the issuance of a Final Order. 

(a) Aggravating circumstances; circumstances which may justify deviating from the above set forth disciplinary guidelines and 
cause the enhancement of a penalty beyond the maximum level of discipline in the guidelines shall include but not be limited to the 
following: 

1. History of previous violations of the practice act and the rules promulgated thereto. 
2. In the case of negligent acts, the magnitude and scope of the damage or potential damage inflicted upon the patient or the 

general public by the licensee's misfeasance. 
3. Evidence of violation of professional practice acts in other jurisdictions wherein the licensee has been disciplined by the 

appropriate regulatory authority. 
4. Violation of the provision of the practice act wherein a letter of guidance as provided in Section 456.073(3), F.S., has 

previously been issued to the licensee. 

(b) Mitigating circumstances; circumstances which may justify deviating from the above set forth disciplinary guidelines and 
cause the lessening of a penalty beyond the minimum level of discipline in the guidelines shall include but not be limited to the 

following: 
1. In cases of negligent acts, the minor nature of the damage or potential damage to the patient's or the public's health, safety 

and welfare resulting from the licensee's misfeasance. 
2. Lack of previous disciplinary history in this or any other jurisdiction wherein the licensee practices his profession. 
3. Restitution of any monetary damage suffered by the patient. 
4. The licensee's professional standing among his peers. 
5. Steps taken by the licensee to insure the non-occurrence of similar violations in the future including continuing education. 
6. The degree of financial hardship incurred by a licensee as a result of the imposition of fines or the suspension of his practice. 
(4) All fines imposed by the Board shall be paid within a period of niney (90) days from the date of the final ordered entered by 

the Board. This time limitation may be modified by the Board for good cause shown in order to prevent undue hardship. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.072, 456.079, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.072, 456.079 FS. History—New 3-1-87, Amended 5-11-88, Formerly 

21S-17.001, 0.OO1, 61F10-30.001, Amended 6-26-95, 1-30-96, Formerly 59X-30.001, Amended 12-3 -9 7, 11-15-98, 5-3-00, 1-2-02, 11-29-06, 

9-26-12. 

64B16-30.002 Minor Violations. 
(1) The Board sets forth the following guidelines for use by Department investigators when a licensee is in noncompliance of an 

initial offense of a minor violation. The Board deems the following violations, depending upon severity, to be consistent with 



Section 456.073(3), F.S. 

(a) Outdated pharmaceuticals Rule 64B16-28.1 10, F.A.C. 
(b) Failure to meet regulation of daily operating hours Rule 64B16-28.404, F.A.C. 
(c) Generic substitution sign not displayed Section 465.025(7), F.S. 

(d) Information required on controlled substance prescriptions: practitioner's address, practitioner's DEA registration number, 
patient's address Section 893.04, F.S. 

(e) Failure to have certified by dispensing pharmacists the daily hard-copy printout or daily log paragraph 64B 16-28. 140(3)(c) 
or (e), F.A.C. 

(f) Failure to have pharmacy minimally equipped i.e. references, compounding equipment, and a current copy of the laws and 
rules governing the practice of pharmacy in the State of Florida Rule 64B16-28.107, F.A.C. 

(g) Failure to properly identifSi pharmacy technicians Rule 64B16-27.410, F.A.C. 
(h) Results of P&E quality assurance program not documented or available for inspection paragraph 64B 1 6-28.820(3)(d), 

F.A.C. 
(i) Improper storage of legend drugs Rule 64B16-28.120, F.A.C. 
(j) Improper documentation of destruction of controlled substances Rules 64B16-28.301, 64B16-28.303, F.A.C. 
(k) Consultant pharmacist's monthly reports not current or available for inspection Rule 64B 16-28.501, subsection 64B 16- 

28.702(2), F.A.C. 
(1) Controlled substance prescription labels lack transfer crime warning labeling paragraph 64B16-28.502(2)(c), F.A.C. 
(2) The Department's investigator may issue a Notice of Deficiencies when the above conditions occur and the requirements of 

Section .073(3), F.S., are met. In such cases licensees shall correct the violation and respond to the investigator on forms 
provided by the Department and with other evidence of compliance as may be necessary, within 30 days, to certify current 
compliance. Failure to do so shall subject the licensee to further proceedings. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.073 (3), 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.073 (3) FS. History—New 11-12-90, Formerly 21S-17.002, 21S-30.002, 

61F10-30. 002, 59X-30. 002, Amended 12-9 -98, 8-26-02. 

64B16-30.003 Citations. 
(1) Pursuant to Section , F.S., the Board sets forth in (3) of this rule those violations for which there is no substantial 

threat to the public health, safety and welfare; or, if there is a substantial threat to the public health, safety and welfare, such 
potential for harm has been removed prior to the issuance of the citation. Next to each violation is the fine to be imposed. 

(2) Prior to issuance of the citation, the Department must confirm that the violation has been corrected or is in the process of 
being corrected. If the violation is a substantial threat to the public health, safety and welfare, such potential for harm must be 
removed prior to issuance of the citation. 

(3) The following violations with accompanying fines may be disposed of by citation: 
(a) Practicing pharmacy as an inactive Fine based on length of time in practice 
licensee (465.015(2)(b), F.S.) while inactive; $200/month or $5,000 

maximum (penalty will require licensee to 

renew license or cease practice). 
(b) Operating a pharmacy with an inactive permit $500 per month to a maximum of $5000 
(465.015(1)(a), F.S.) (penalty will require permittee to renew 

permit or cease practice). 
(c) First time failure to complete the required continuing education during the biennial licensure period.(456.072(3), F.S.) 
Failure to complete less than 10 hours $500 
Failure to complete 10 or more hours $1000 

In addition, licensees shall take two additional hours of continuing education for each of the continuing education deficiencies. Said 
hours shall not count for continuing education renewal requirements for the next biennium. 

(d) Failure to timely pay $500 per month late to a maximum of 
a fine or costs imposed $5,000 (penalty will require permittee or 
by a final order. licensee to also pay the original fine 

and/or costs). 



(e) Failure to display any $500 
sign, license or permit 
required by statute or rule. 
(f) Failure to have any reference $500 
material required by statute or 
rule available. 

(g) Failure to notify the Fine based on the length of time 
board of a change in prior to notifying board. 
a prescription department $200 a month to $5,000 maximum. 
manager or consultant 
pharmacist. 
(h) Using in the compounding of a $250 fine, Completion of an approved 
prescription, or ftirnishing upon CE course in the prevention of medication 
prescription, an ingredient or article errors of no less than 8 hours. 
different in any manner from the ingredient 
or article prescribed, except as authorized 
in Section 465.019(6) or 465.025, F.S.; or 
dispensing a medication with dosage 
instructions different in any way than 
prescribed, provided that the medication was 
not used or ingested. 
(i) Tendering a check payable to the $100 fine plus payment of the 
Board of Pharmacy or to the check within 30 days. 

Department of Health that is dishonored 
by the Institution upon which it is drawn. 
(j) Failing to comply with the $500 
Educational course requirements for 
Human immunodeficiency virus and 
Aquired immune deficiency 
syndrome (HIV/AIDS), or medical errors 
(k) Failure to correct $250 
Minor violation as listed in 

Rule 64B16-30.002, F.A.C. 
(1) Failure to retain continuing education records $250 
(4) Once the citation becomes a final order, the citation and complaint become a public record pursuant to Chapter 119, F.S., 

unless otherwise exempt from the provisions thereof The citation and complaint may be considered as aggravating circumstances in 
future disciplinary actions pursuant to paragraph 64B16-30.OO1(3)(a), F.A.C. 

(5) The procedures described herein apply only for an initial offense of the alleged violation. Subsequent violation(s) of the 

same rule or statute shall require the procedures of Section 456.073, F.S., to be applied. In addition, should an initial offense for 
which a citation could be issued occur in conjunction with violations not described herein, then the procedures of Section 456.073, 
F.S., shall apply. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.073, 456.077, 465.005 FS. Law Implemented 456.077 FS. History—New 12-22-91, Formerly 21S-30.003, 61F10-30.003, 

59X-30.003, Amended 4-3-00, 1-2-02, 8-26-02, 1-12-03, 2-1-12. 

64B16-30.0035 Mediation. 
(1) "Mediation" means a process whereby a mediator appointed by the Department acts to encourage and facilitate resolution of 

a legally sufficient complaint. It is an informal and nonadversarial process with the objective of assisting the parties to reach a 

mutually acceptable agreement. 
(2) The Board finds that mediation is an acceptable method of dispute resolution for the following violation as it is economic in 



nature or can be remedied by the licensee: failure of the licensee to timely pay any assessed administrative fines or costs. 
(3) A "mediator" means a person who is certified in mediation by the Florida Bar, the Florida Supreme Court, or the Division of 

Administrative Hearings. 

Rulemaking Authority 456.078 FS. Law Implemented 456.078 FS. History—New 11-21-94, Formerly 59X-30.0035. 



USP35 
NF3O 

USP—NF General Chapter <797> 
Pharmaceutical Compounding— 

Sterile Preparations 

U.S. PHARMACOPEIA 
The Standard of Qua/it 

Copyright ©201 I The United States Pharmacopeial Convention 

2012 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 

(797) PHARMACEUTICAL 
COMPOUNDING-STERILE 

PREPARATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

The objective of this chapter is to describe conditions and 
practices to prevent harm, including death, to patients that 
could result from (1) microbial contamination (nonsterility), 
(2) excessive bacterial endotoxins, (3) variability in the in- 
tended strength of correct ingredients that exceeds either 
monograph limits for official articles (see "official" and "arti- 
cle" in the General Notices and Requirements) or 1 0% for 
nonofficial articles, (4) unintended chemical and physical 
contaminants, and (5) ingredients of inappropriate quality in 
compounded sterile preparations (CSP5). Contaminated 
CSPs are potentially most hazardous to patients when ad- 
ministered into body cavities, central nervous and vascular 
systems, eyes, and joints, and when used as baths for live 
organs and tissues. When CSPs contain excessive bacterial 
endotoxins (see Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85)), they are po- 
tentially most hazardous to patients when administered into 
the central nervous system. 

Despite the extensive attention in this chapter to the pro- 
vision, maintenance, and evaluation of air quality, the avoid- 
ance of direct or physical contact contamination is para- 
mount. It is generally acknowledged that direct or physical 
contact of critical sites of CSPs with contaminants, especially 
microbial sources, poses the greatest probability of risk to 
patients. Therefore, compounding personnel must be metic- 
ulously conscientious in precluding contact contamination of 
CSPs both within and outside ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) ar- 
eas. 

To achieve the above five conditions and practices, this 
chapter provides minimum practice and quality standards 
for CSPs of drugs and nutrients based on current scientific 
information and best sterile compounding practices. The use 
of technologies, techniques, materials, and procedures other 
than those described in this chapter is not prohibited so 
long as they have been proven to be equivalent or superior 
with statistical significance to those described herein. The 
standards in this chapter do not pertain to the clinical ad- 
ministration of CSPs to patients via application, implantation, 
infusion, inhalation, injection, insertion, instillation, and irri- 
gation, which are the routes of administration. Four specific 
categories of CSPs are described in this chapter: low-risk 
level, medium-risk level, and high-risk level, and immediate 
use. Sterile compounding differs from nonsterile compound- 
ing (see Pharmaceutical Compounding—Nonsterile Prepara- 
tions (795) and Good Compounding Practices (1075)) prima- 
rily by requiring the maintenance of sterility when 
compounding exclusively with sterile ingredients and com- 
ponents (i.e., with immediate-use CSPs, low-risk level CSPs, 
and medium-risk level CSPs) and the achievement of sterility 
when compounding with nonsterile ingredients and compo- 
nents (i.e., with high-risk level CSPs). Some differences be- 
tween standards for sterile compounding in this chapter and 
those for nonsterile compounding in Pharmaceutical Com- 
pounding—Nonsterile Preparations (795) include, but are not 
limited to, ISO-classified air environments (see Table 1); per- 
sonnel garbing and gloving; personnel training and testing 
in principles and practices of aseptic manipulations and ster- 
ilization; environmental quality specifications and monitor- 
ing; and disinfection of gloves and surfaces of ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1) sources. 

Table 1. ISO Classification of Particulate Matter in Room Air 
(limits are in particles of 0.5 .Lm and larger per cubic meter current 
ISO] and cubic feet former Federal Standard No. 209E, FS ])* 

Class Name Particle Count 

ISO Class U.S. FS 209E ISO, m° 
FS 209E, 

3 Class 1 35.2 1 

4 Class 10 352 10 

5 Class 100 3,520 100 

6 Class 1,000 35,200 1,000 

7 Class 10,000 352,000 10,000 

8 Class 100,000 3,520,000 100,000 
*Adapted from former Federal Standard No. 209E, General Services 
Administration, Washington, DC, 20407 (September 11, 1992) and 
ISO 14644-1:1999, Cleanrooms and associated controlled environ- 
ments—Part 1: Classification of air cleanliness. For example, 3,520 
particles of 0.5 per 3 or larger (ISO Class 5) is equivalent to 
100 particles per ft3 (Class 100) (1 3 = 35.2 ). 
The standards in this chapter are intended to apply to all 

persons who prepare CSPs and all places where CSPs are 
prepared (e.g., hospitals and other healthcare institutions, 
patient treatment clinics, pharmacies, physicians' practice fa- 
cilities, and other locations and facilities in which CSPs are 
prepared, stored, and transported). Persons who perform 
sterile compounding include pharmacists, nurses, pharmacy 
technicians, and physicians. These terms recognize that 
most sterile compounding is performed by or under the su- 
pervision of pharmacists in pharmacies and also that this 
chapter applies to all healthcare personnel who prepare, 
store, and transport CSPs. For the purposes of this chapter, 
CSPs include any of the following: 

(1) Compounded biologics, diagnostics, drugs, nutrients, 
and radiopharmaceuticals, including but not limited 
to the following dosage forms that must be sterile 
when they are administered to patients: aqueous 
bronchial and nasal inhalations, baths and soaks for 
live organs and tissues, injections (e.g., colloidal dis- 
persions, emulsions, solutions, suspensions), irrigations 
for wounds and body cavities, ophthalmic drops and 
ointments, and tissue implants. 

(2) Manufactured sterile products that are either prepared 
strictly according to the instructions appearing in 
manufacturers' approved labeling (product package 
inserts) or prepared differently than published in such 
labeling. NOTE—The FDA states that "Compounding 
does not include mixing, reconstituting, or similar acts 
that are performed in accordance with the directions 
contained in approved labeling provided by the prod- 
uct's manufacturer and other manufacturer directions 
consistent with that labeling" 21 USC 321 (k) and 
(m)]. However, the FDA-approved labeling (product 
package insert) rarely describes environmental quality 
(e.g., ISO Class air designation, exposure durations to 
non-ISO classified air, personnel garbing and gloving, 
and other aseptic precautions by which sterile prod- 
ucts are to be prepared for administration). Beyond- 
use exposure and storage dates or times (see General 
Notices and Requirements and Pharmaceutical Com- 
pounding—Nonsterile Preparations (795)) for sterile 
products that have been either opened or prepared 
for administration are not specified in all package in- 
serts for all sterile products. Furthermore, when such 
durations are specified, they may refer to chemical 
stability and not necessarily to microbiological purity 
or safety.] 

ORGANIZATION OF THIS CHAPTER 

The sections in this chapter are organized to facilitate the 
practitioner's understanding of the fundamental accuracy 
and quality practices for preparing CSPs. They provide a 



2 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

foundation for the development and implementation of es- 
sential procedures for the safe preparation of low-risk, me- 
dium-risk, and high-risk level CSPs and immediate-use CSPs, 
which are classified according to the potential for microbial, 
chemical, and physical contamination. The chapter is di- 
vided into the following main sections: 

• Definitions 
• Responsibility of Compounding Personnel 
• CSP Microbial Contamination Risk Levels 
• Personnel Training and Evaluation in Aseptic Manipula- 

tion Skills 
• Immediate-Use CSPs 
• Single-Dose and Multiple-Dose Containers 
• Hazardous Drugs as CSPs 
• Radiopharmaceuticals as CSPs 
• Allergen Extracts as CSPs 
• Verification of Compounding Accuracy and Sterility 
• Environmental Quality and Control 
• Suggested Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 
• Elements of Quality Control 
• Verification of Automated Compounding Devices 

(ACD5) for Parenteral Nutrition Compounding 
• Finished Preparation Release Checks and Tests 
• Storage and Beyond-Use Dating 
• Maintaining Sterility, Purity, and Stability of Dispensed 

and Distributed CSPs 
• Patient or Caregiver Training 
• Patient Monitoring and Adverse Events Reporting 
• Quality Assurance (QA) Program 
• Abbreviations and Acronyms 
• Appendices I—V 

The requirements and recommendations in this chapter 
are summarized in Appendix I. A list of abbreviations and 
acronyms is included at the end of the main text, before the 
Appendices. 

All personnel who prepare CSPs shall be responsible for 
understanding these fundamental practices and precautions, 
for developing and implementing appropriate procedures, 
and for continually evaluating these procedures and the 
quality of final CSPs to prevent harm. 

DEFINITIONS 

Ante-Area—An ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) or better area 
where personnel hand hygiene and garbing procedures, 
staging of components, order entry, CSP labeling, and other 
high-particulate-generating activities are performed. It is also 
a transition area that (1) provides assurance that pressure 
relationships are constantly maintained so that air flows 
from clean to dirty areas and (2) reduces the need for the 
heating, ventilating, and air-conditioning (HVAC) control 
system to respond to large 1 

Aseptic Processing (see Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6))—A 
mode of processing pharmaceutical and medical products 
that involves the separate sterilization of the product and of 
the package (containers—closures or packaging material for 
medical devices) and the transfer of the product into the 
container and its closure under at least ISO Class 5 (see 
Table 1) conditions. 

Beyond-Use Date (BUD) (see General Notices and Re- 
quirements and Pharmaceutical Compounding—Nonsterile 
Preparations (795))—For the purpose of this chapter, the 
date or time after which a CSP shall not be stored or trans- 
ported. The date is determined from the date or time the 
preparation is compounded. 

Biological Safety Cabinet (BSC)—A ventilated cabinet 
for CSPs, personnel, product, and environmental protection 
having an open front with inward airflow for personnel pro- 
tection, downward high-efficiency particulate air (H EPA)- 

1 See American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, 
Inc. (ASHRAE), Laboratory Design Guide. 

filtered laminar airflow for product protection, and HEPA- 
filtered exhausted air for environmental protection. 

Buffer Area—An area where the primary engineering 
control (PEC) is physically located. Activities that occur in 
this area include the preparation and staging of components 
and supplies used when compounding CSPs. 

Clean Room (see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean 
Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6) and also 
the definition of Buffer Area)—A room in which the concen- 
tration of airborne particles is controlled to meet a specified 
airborne particulate cleanliness class. Microorganisms in the 
environment are monitored so that a microbial level for air, 
surface, and personnel gear are not exceeded for a specified 
cleanliness class. 

Compounding Aseptic Containment Isolator (CACI)— 
A compounding aseptic isolator (CAl) designed to provide 
worker protection from exposure to undesirable levels of air- 
borne drug throughout the compounding and material 
transfer processes and to provide an aseptic environment for 
compounding sterile preparations. Air exchange with the 
surrounding environment should not occur unless the air is 

first passed through a microbial retentive filter (HEPA mini- 
mum) system capable of containing airborne concentrations 
of the physical size and state of the drug being com- 
pounded. Where volatile hazardous drugs are prepared, the 
exhaust air from the isolator should be appropriately re- 
moved by properly designed building ventilation. 

Compounding Aseptic Isolator (CAI)—A form of isola- 
tor specifically designed for compounding pharmaceutical 
ingredients or preparations. It is designed to maintain an 
aseptic compounding environment within the isolator 
throughout the compounding and material transfer 
processes. Air exchange into the isolator from the surround- 
ing environment should not occur unless the air has first 
passed through a microbially retentive filter (HEPA mini- 2 

Critical Area—An ISO Class S (see Table 1) environment. 
Critical Site—A location that includes any component or 

fluid pathway surfaces (e.g., vial septa, injection ports, beak- 
ers) or openings (e.g., opened ampuls, needle hubs) ex- 
posed and at risk of direct contact with air (e.g., ambient 
room or HEPA filtered), moisture (e.g., oral and mucosal se- 
cretions), or touch contamination. Risk of microbial particu- 
late contamination of the critical site increases with the size 
of the openings and exposure time. 

Direct Compounding Area (DCA)—A critical area within 
the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) primary engineering control 
(PEC) where critical sites are exposed to unidirectional HEPA- 
filtered air, also known as first air. 

Disinfectant—An agent that frees from infection, usually 
a chemical agent but sometimes a physical one, and that 
destroys disease-causing pathogens or other harmful micro- 
organisms but may not kill bacterial and fungal spores. It 
refers to substances applied to inanimate objects. 

First Air—The air exiting the HEPA filter in a unidirec- 
tional air stream that is essentially particle free. 

Hazardous Drugs—Drugs are classified as hazardous if 
studies in animals or humans indicate that exposures to 
them have a potential for causing cancer, development or 
reproductive toxicity, or harm to organs. (See current NI- 
OSH publication.) 

Labeling see General Notices and Requirements and 21 
USC 321 (k) and (m)]—A term that designates all labels and 
other written, printed, or graphic matter on an immediate 
container of an article or preparation or on, or in, any pack- 
age or wrapper in which it is enclosed, except any outer 
shipping container. The term "label" designates that part of 
the labeling on the immediate container. 
2 CETA Applications Guide for the Use of Compounding Isolators in Compounding 
Sterile Preparations in Healthcare Facilities, CAG-001 -2005, Controlled Environ- 
ment Testing Association (CETA), November 8, 2005. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 3 

Media-Fill Test (see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean 
Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6))—A test 
used to qualify aseptic technique of compounding personnel 
or processes and to ensure that the processes used are able 
to produce sterile product without microbial contamination. 
During this test, a microbiological growth medium such as 
Soybean—Casein Digest Medium is substituted for the actual 
drug product to simulate admixture 3 The is- 
sues to consider in the development of a media-fill test are 
media-fill procedures, media selection, fill volume, incuba- 
tion, time and temperature, inspection of filled units, docu- 
mentation, interpretation of results, and possible corrective 
actions required. 

Multiple-Dose Container (see General Notices and Re- 
quirements and Containers for Injections under Injections 
(1 ))—A multiple-unit container for articles or preparations 
intended for parenteral administration only and usually con- 
taining antimicrobial preservatives. The beyond-use date 
(BUD) for an opened or entered (e.g., needle-punctured) 
multiple-dose container with antimicrobial preservatives is 
28 days (see Antimicrobial Effectiveness Testing (51 )), unless 
otherwise specified by the manufacturer. 

Negative Pressure Room—A room that is at a lower 
pressure than the adjacent spaces and, therefore, the net 
flow of air is into the 1 

Pharmacy Bulk Package (see Containers for Injections 
under Injections (1))—A container of a sterile preparation for 
parenteral use that contains many single doses. The con- 
tents are intended for use in a pharmacy admixture pro- 
gram and are restricted to the preparation of admixtures for 
infusion or, through a sterile transfer device, for the filling of 
empty sterile syringes. The closure shall be penetrated only 
one time after constitution with a suitable sterile transfer 
device or dispensing set, which allows measured dispensing 
of the contents. The pharmacy bulk package is to be used 
only in a suitable work area such as a laminar flow hood (or 
an equivalent clean air compounding area). 

Where a container is offered as a pharmacy bulk package, 
the label shall (a) state prominently "Pharmacy Bulk Pack- 
age—Not for Direct Infusion," (b) contain or refer to infor- 
mation on proper techniques to help ensure safe use of the 
product, and (c) bear a statement limiting the time frame in 
which the container may be used once it has been entered, 
provided it is held under the labeled storage conditions. 

Primary Engineering Control (PEC)—A device or room 
that provides an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for 
the exposure of critical sites when compounding CSPs. Such 
devices include, but may not be limited to, laminar airflow 
workbenches (LAFW5), biological safety cabinets (BSC5), 
compounding aseptic isolators (CAI5), and compounding 
aseptic containment isolators (CACI5). 

Preparation—A preparation, or a CSP, that is a sterile 
drug or nutrient compounded in a licensed pharmacy or 
other healthcare-related facility pursuant to the order of a 

licensed prescriber; the article may or may not contain ster- 
ile products. 

Product—A commercially manufactured sterile drug or 
nutrient that has been evaluated for safety and efficacy by 
the FDA. Products are accompanied by full prescribing infor- 
mation, which is commonly known as the FDA-approved 
manufacturer's labeling or product package insert. 

Positive Pressure Room—A room that is at a higher 
pressure than the adjacent spaces and, therefore, the net 
airflow is out of the 1 

Single-Dose Container (see General Notices and Require- 
ments and Containers for Injections under Injections (1 ))—A 
single-dose container is a single-unit container for articles 
(see General Notices and Requirements) or preparations in- 
tended for parenteral administration only. It is intended for 
a single use. A single-dose container is labeled as such. Ex- 

U.S. Food and Drug Administration, Guidance for Industry, Sterile Drug Prod- 
ucts Produced by Aseptic Processing—current Good Manufacturing Practice, Sep- 
tember 2004. 

amples of single-dose containers include prefilled syringes, 
cartridges, fusion-sealed containers, and closure-sealed con- 
tainers when so labeled. 

Segregated Compounding Area—A designated space, 
either a demarcated area or room, that is restricted to pre- 
paring low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD. Such 
area shall contain a device that provides unidirectional air- 
flow of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality for preparation 
of CSPs and shall be void of activities and materials that are 
extraneous to sterile compounding. 

Sterilizing Grade Membranes—Membranes that are 
documented to retain 100% of a culture of 1 microorgan- 
isms of a strain of Brevundimonas (Pseudomonas) diminuta 
per square centimeter of membrane surface under a pres- 
sure of not less than 30 psi (2.0 bar). Such filter membranes 
are nominally at 0.22-j.tm or 0.2-gm nominal pore size, de- 
pending on the manufacturer's practice. 

Sterilization by Filtration—Passage of a fluid or solution 
through a sterilizing grade membrane to produce a sterile 
effluent. 

Terminal Sterilization—The application of a lethal pro- 
cess (e.g., steam under pressure or autoclaving) to sealed 
containers for the purpose of achieving a predetermined ste- 
rility assurance level of usually less than 1 0-6, or a probabil- 
ity of less than one in one million of a nonsterile 3 

Unidirectional Flow (see footnote 3)—An airflow moving 
in a single direction in a robust and uniform manner and at 
sufficient speed to reproducibly sweep particles away from 
the critical processing or testing area. 

RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPOUNDING 
PERSONNEL 

Compounding personnel are responsible for ensuring that 
CSPs are accurately identified, measured, diluted, and mixed 
and are correctly purified, sterilized, packaged, sealed, la- 
beled, stored, dispensed, and distributed. These perfor- 
mance responsibilities include maintaining appropriate 
cleanliness conditions and providing labeling and supple- 
mentary instructions for the proper clinical administration of 
CS Ps. 

Compounding supervisors shall ensure, through either di- 
rect measurement or appropriate information sources, that 
specific CSPs maintain their labeled strength within mono- 
graph limits for USP articles, or within 10% if not specified, 
until their BUDs. All CSPs are prepared in a manner that 
maintains sterility and minimizes the introduction of particu- 
late matter. 

A written quality assurance procedure includes the follow- 
ing in-process checks that are applied, as appropriate, to 
specific CSPs: accuracy and precision of measuring and 
weighing; the requirement for sterility; methods of steriliza- 
tion and purification; safe limits and ranges for strength of 
ingredients, bacterial endotoxins, and particulate matter; 
PH; labeling accuracy and completeness; BUD assignment; 
and packaging and storage requirements. The dispenser 
shall, when appropriate and practicable, obtain and evaluate 
results of testing for identity, strength, purity, and sterility 
before a CSP is dispensed. Qualified licensed healthcare pro- 
fessionals who supervise compounding and dispensing of 
CSPs shall ensure that the following objectives are achieved: 

1. Compounding personnel are adequately skilled, edu- 
cated, instructed, and trained to correctly perform 
and document the following activities in their sterile 
compounding duties: 

a. perform antiseptic hand cleansing and disinfection 
of nonsterile compounding surfaces; 

b. select and appropriately don protective garb; 
c. maintain or achieve sterility of CSPs in ISO Class 5 

(see Table 1) PEC devices and protect personnel 
and compounding environments from contamina- 
tion by radioactive, cytotoxic, and chemotoxic 



4 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

drugs (see Hazardous Drugs as CSPs and Radio- 
pharmaceuticals as CSPs); 

d. identify, weigh, and measure ingredients; and 
e. manipulate sterile products aseptically, sterilize 

high-risk level CSPs, and label and quality inspect 
CSPs. 

2. Ingredients have their correct identity, quality, and 
purity. 

3. Opened or partially used packages of ingredients for 
subsequent use in CSPs are properly stored under re- 
stricted access conditions in the compounding facility. 
Such packages cannot be used when visual inspection 
detects unauthorized breaks in the container, closure, 
and seal; when the contents do not possess the ex- 
pected appearance, aroma, and texture; when the 
contents do not pass identification tests specified by 
the compounding facility; and when either the BUD 
or expiration date has been exceeded. 

4. Water-containing CSPs that are nonsterile during any 
phase of the compounding procedure are sterilized 
within 6 hours after completing the preparation in or- 
der to minimize the generation of bacterial 
endotoxins. 

5. Sterilization methods achieve sterility of CSPs while 
maintaining the labeled strength of active ingredients 
and the physical integrity of packaging. 

6. Measuring, mixing, sterilizing, and purifying devices 
are clean, appropriately accurate, and effective for 
their intended use. 

7. Potential harm from added substances and differences 
in rate and extent of bioavailability of active ingredi- 
ents for other than oral route of administration are 
carefully evaluated before such CSPs are dispensed 
and administered. 

8. Packaging selected for CSPs is appropriate to preserve 
the sterility and strength until the BUD. 

9. While being used, the compounding environment 
maintains the sterility or the presterilization purity, 
whichever is appropriate, of the CSP. 

10. Labels on CSPs list the names and amounts or con- 
centrations of active ingredients, and the labels or la- 
beling of injections (see Preservation, Packaging, Stor- 
age, and Labeling in the General Notices and 
Requirements) list the names and amounts or concen- 
trations of all ingredients (see Injections (1>). Before 
being dispensed or administered, the clarity of solu- 
tions is visually confirmed; also, the identity and 
amounts of ingredients, procedures to prepare and 
sterilize CSPs, and specific release criteria are reviewed 
to ensure their accuracy and completeness. 

11. BUDs are assigned on the basis of direct testing or 
extrapolation from reliable literature sources and 
other documentation (see Stability Criteria and Be- 
yond-Use Dating under Pharmaceutical Compounding— 
Nonsterile Preparations (795)). 

12. Procedures for measuring, mixing, dilution, purifica- 
tion, sterilization, packaging, and labeling conform to 
the correct sequence and quality established for the 
specified CSP. 

1 3. Deficiencies in compounding, labeling, packaging, 
and quality testing and inspection can be rapidly 
identified and corrected. 

14. When time and personnel availability so permit, com- 
pounding manipulations and procedures are sepa- 
rated from postcompounding quality inspection and 
review before CSPs are dispensed. 

This chapter emphasizes the need to maintain high stan- 
dards for the quality and control of processes, components, 
and environments and for the skill and knowledge of per- 
sonnel who prepare CSPs. The rigor of in-process quality- 
control checks and of postcompounding quality inspection 
and testing increases with the potential hazard of the route 
of administration. For example, nonsterility, excessive bacte- 
rial endotoxin contamination, large errors in strength of cor- 
rect ingredients, and incorrect ingredients in CSPs are po- 

tentially more dangerous to patients when the CSPs are 
administered into the vascular and central nervous systems 
than when administered by most other routes. 

CSP MICROBIAL CONTAMINATION RISK 
LEVELS 

The three contamination categories for CSPs described in 
this section are assigned primarily according to the potential 
for microbial contamination during the compounding of 
low-risk level CSPs and medium-risk level CSPs or the poten- 
tial for not sterilizing high-risk level CSPs, any of which 
would subject patients to risk of harm, including death. 
High-risk level CSPs must be sterilized before being adminis- 
tered to patients. The appropriate risk level—low, medium, 
or high—is assigned according to the corresponding proba- 
bility of contaminating a CSP with (1) microbial contamina- 
tion (e.g., microbial organisms, spores, endotoxins) and (2) 
chemical and physical contamination (e.g., foreign chemi- 
cals, physical matter). Potential sources of contamination in- 
clude, but are not limited to, solid and liquid matter from 
compounding personnel and objects; nonsterile components 
employed and incorporated before terminal sterilization; in- 
appropriate conditions within the restricted compounding 
environment; prolonged presterilization procedures with 
aqueous preparations; and nonsterile dosage forms used to 
compound CSPs. 

The characteristics described below for low-, medium-, 
and high-risk level CSPs are intended as a guide to the 
breadth and depth of care necessary in compounding, but 
they are neither exhaustive nor prescriptive. The licensed 
healthcare professionals who supervise compounding are re- 
sponsible for determining the procedural and environmental 
quality practices and attributes that are necessary for the risk 
level they assign to specific CSPs. 

These risk levels apply to the quality of CSPs immediately 
after the final aseptic mixing or filling or immediately after 
the final sterilization, unless precluded by the specific char- 
acteristics of the preparation. Upon subsequent storage and 
shipping of freshly finished CSPs, an increase in the risks of 
chemical degradation of ingredients, contamination from 
physical damage to packaging, and permeability of plastic 
and elastomeric packaging is expected. In such cases, com- 
pounding personnel are responsible for considering the po- 
tential additional risks to the integrity of CSPs when as- 
signing BUDs. The pre-administration storage duration and 
temperature limits specified in the following subsections ap- 
ply in the absence of direct sterility testing results that justify 
different limits for specific CSPs. 

Low-Risk Level CSPs 

CSPs compounded under all the following conditions are 
at a low risk of contamination. 

Low-Risk Conditions— 
1. The CSPs are compounded with aseptic manipula- 

tions entirely within ISO Class S (see Table 1) or bet- 
ter air quality using only sterile ingredients, products, 
components, and devices. 

2. The compounding involves only transfer, measuring, 
and mixing manipulations using not more than three 
commercially manufactured packages of sterile prod- 
ucts and not more than two entries into any one ster- 
ile container or package (e.g., bag, vial) of sterile 
product or administration container/device to prepare 
the CSP. 

3. Manipulations are limited to aseptically opening am- 
puls, penetrating disinfected stoppers on vials with 
sterile needles and syringes, and transferring sterile 
liquids in sterile syringes to sterile administration de- 
vices, package containers of other sterile products, 
and containers for storage and dispensing. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 5 

4. For a low-risk level preparation, in the absence of 
passing a sterility test (see Sterility Tests (71 )), the 
storage periods cannot exceed the following time pe- 
riods: before administration, the CSPs are properly 
stored and are exposed for not more than 48 hours at 
controlled room temperature (see General Notices and 
Requirements), for not more than 14 days at a cold 
temperature (see General Notices and Requirements), 
and for 45 days in solid frozen state between —25° 
and —10g. 

Examples of Low-Risk Compounding— 
1. Single-volume transfers of sterile dosage forms from 

ampuls, bottles, bags, and vials using sterile syringes 
with sterile needles, other administration devices, and 
other sterile containers. The solution content of am- 
puls should be passed through a sterile filter to re- 
move any particles. 

2. Simple aseptic measuring and transferring with not 
more than three packages of manufactured sterile 
products, including an infusion or diluent solution to 
compound drug admixtures and nutritional solutions. 

Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD—If the 
PEC is a CAl or CACI that does not meet the requirements 
described in Placement of Primary Engineering Controls or is a 
laminar airflow workbench (LAFW) or a biological safety 
cabinet (BSC) that cannot be located within an ISO Class 7 
(see Table 1) buffer area, then only low-risk level nonhazard- 
ous and radiopharmaceutical CSPs pursuant to a physician's 
order for a specific patient may be prepared, and adminis- 
tration of such CSPs shall commence within 12 hours of 
preparation or as recommended in the manufacturers' pack- 
age insert, whichever is less. Low-risk level CSPs with a 
12-hour or less BUD shall meet all of the following four 
criteria: 

1. PECs (LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, CACIs,) shall be certified 
and maintain ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) as described in 
Facility Design and Environmental Controls for exposure 
of critical sites and shall be in a segregated com- 
pounding area restricted to sterile compounding ac- 
tivities that minimize the risk of CSP contamination. 

2. The segregated compounding area shall not be in a 
location that has unsealed windows or doors that 
connect to the outdoors or high traffic flow, or that is 
adjacent to construction sites, warehouses, or food 
preparation. Note that this list is not intended to be 
all inclusive. 

3. Personnel shall follow the procedures described in 
Personnel Cleansing and Garbing and Additional Person- 
nel Requirements prior to compounding. Sinks should 
not be located adjacent to the ISO Class 5 (see Table 
1) PEC. Sinks should be separated from the immedi- 
ate area of the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC device. 

4. The specifications in Cleaning and Disinfecting the Ster- 
ile Compounding Areas, Personnel Training and Compe- 
tency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and 
Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures, and Viable and Non- 
viable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing shall be fol- 
lowed as described in the chapter. 

Compounding personnel must recognize that the absence 
of an ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer area environment in a 
general uncontrolled environment increases the potential of 
microbial contamination, and administration durations of 
microbially contaminated CSPs exceeding a few hours in- 
crease the potential for clinically significant microbial coloni- 
zation, and thus for patient harm, especially in critically ill or 
immunocompromised patients. 

Quality Assurance—Quality assurance practices include, 
but are not limited to the following: 

1. Routine disinfection and air quality testing of the di- 
rect compounding environment to minimize micro- 
bial surface contamination and maintain ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1) air quality. 

2. Visual confirmation that compounding personnel are 
properly donning and wearing appropriate items and 

types of protective garments, including eye protec- 
tion and face masks. 

3. Review of all orders and packages of ingredients to 
ensure that the correct identity and amounts of ingre- 
dients were compounded. 

4. Visual inspection of CSPs to ensure the absence of 
particulate matter in solutions, the absence of leakage 
from vials and bags, and the accuracy and thorough- 
ness of labeling. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure—This test or an equivalent 
test is performed at least annually by each person author- 
ized to compound in a low-risk level environment under 
conditions that closely simulate the most challenging or 
stressful conditions encountered during compounding of 
low-risk level CSPs. Once begun, this test is completed with- 
out interruption. Example of test procedure: within an ISO 
Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality environment, three sets of 
four 5-mL aliquots of sterile Soybean—Casein Digest Medium 
(also known as trypticase soy broth or trypticase soy agar 
TSA]) are transferred with the same sterile 10-mL syringe 
and vented needle combination into separate sealed, empty, 
sterile 30-mL clear vials (i.e., four 5-mL aliquots into each of 
three 30-mL vials). Sterile adhesive seals are aseptically af- 
fixed to the rubber closures on the three filled vials, then 
the vials are incubated at 200 to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a 
minimum of 14 days. If two temperatures are used for incu- 
bation of media-filled samples, then these filled containers 
should be incubated for at least 7 days at each temperature 
(see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other 
Controlled Environments (111 6)). Inspect for microbial 
growth over 14 days as described in Personnel Training and 
Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and 
Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures. 

Medium-Risk Level CSPs 

When CSPs are compounded aseptically under Low-Risk 
Conditions and one or more of the following conditions ex- 
ists, such CSPs are at a medium risk of contamination. 

Medium-Risk Conditions— 
1. Multiple individual or small doses of sterile products 

are combined or pooled to prepare a CSP that will be 
administered either to multiple patients or to one pa- 
tient on multiple occasions. 

2. The compounding process includes complex aseptic 
manipulations other than the single-volume transfer. 

3. The compounding process requires unusually long 
duration, such as that required to complete dissolu- 
tion or homogeneous mixing. 

4. For a medium-risk preparation, in the absence of 
passing a sterility test (see Sterility Tests (71 )), the 
storage periods cannot exceed the following time pe- 
riods: before administration, the CSPs are properly 
stored and are exposed for not more than 30 hours at 
controlled room temperature (see General Notices and 
Requirements), for not more than 9 days at a cold 
temperature (see General Notices and Requirements), 
and for 45 days in solid frozen state between —25° 
and —10°. 

Examples of Medium-Risk Compounding— 
1. Compounding of total parenteral nutrition fluids us- 

ing manual or automated devices during which there 
are multiple injections, detachments, and attachments 
of nutrient source products to the device or machine 
to deliver all nutritional components to a final sterile 
container. 

2. Filling of reservoirs of injection and infusion devices 
with more than three sterile drug products and evac- 
uation of air from those reservoirs before the filled 
device is dispensed. 

3. Transfer of volumes from multiple ampuls or vials into 
one or more final sterile containers. 



6 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Quality Assurance—Quality assurance procedures for 
medium-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level 
CSPs, as well as a more challenging media-fill test passed 
annually or more frequently. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure—This test or an equivalent 
test is performed at least annually under conditions that 
closely simulate the most challenging or stressful conditions 
encountered during compounding. Once begun, this test is 
completed without interruption. Example of test procedure: 
within an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality environment, 
six 1 00-mL aliquots of sterile Soybean—Casein Digest Me- 
dium are aseptically transferred by gravity through separate 
tubing sets into separate evacuated sterile containers. The 
six containers are then arranged as three pairs, and a sterile 
1 0-mL syringe and 1 8-gauge needle combination is used to 
exchange two 5-mL aliquots of medium from one container 
to the other container in the pair. For example, after a 5-mL 
aliquot from the first container is added to the second con- 
tainer in the pair, the second container is agitated for 
10 seconds, then a 5-mL aliquot is removed and returned to 
the first container in the pair. The first container is then 
agitated for 10 seconds, and the next 5-mL aliquot is trans- 
ferred from it back to the second container in the pair. Fol- 
lowing the two 5-mL aliquot exchanges in each pair of con- 
tainers, a 5-mL aliquot of medium from each container is 
aseptically injected into a sealed, empty, sterile 10-mL clear 
vial, using a sterile 10-mL syringe and vented needle. Sterile 
adhesive seals are aseptically affixed to the rubber closures 
on the three filled vials, then the vials are incubated at 20° 
to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a minimum of 14 days. If two 
temperatures are used for incubation of media-filled sam- 
ples, then these filled containers should be incubated for at 
least 7 days at each temperature (see Microbiological Evalua- 
tion of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments 
(1116)). Inspect for microbial growth over 14 days as de- 
scribed in Personnel Training and Competency Evaluation of 
Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection Pro- 
cedures. 

High-Risk Level CSPs 

CSPs compounded under any of the following conditions 
are either contaminated or at a high risk to become 
contaminated. 

High-Risk Conditions— 
1. Nonsterile ingredients, including manufactured prod- 

ucts not intended for sterile routes of administration 
(e.g., oral), are incorporated or a nonsterile device is 
employed before terminal sterilization. 

2. Any of the following are exposed to air quality worse 
than ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) for more than 1 hour 
(see Immediate-Use CSP5): 
• sterile contents of commercially manufactured 

products, 
• CSPs that lack effective antimicrobial preservatives, 

and 
• sterile surfaces of devices and containers for the 

preparation, transfer, sterilization, and packaging of 
CS Ps. 

3. Compounding personnel are improperly garbed and 
gloved (see Personnel Cleansing and Use of Barrier Pro- 
tective Equipment). 

4. Nonsterile water-containing preparations are stored 
for more than 6 hours before being sterilized. 

5. It is assumed, and not verified by examination of la- 
beling and documentation from suppliers or by direct 
determination, that the chemical purity and content 
strength of ingredients meet their original or corn- 
pendial specifications in unopened or in opened 
packages of bulk ingredients (see Ingredient Selection 
under Pharmaceutical Compounding—Nonsterile Prepa- 
rations (795)). 

For a sterilized high-risk level preparation, in the absence 
of passing a sterility test, the storage periods cannot exceed 

the following time periods: before administration, the CSPs 
are properly stored and are exposed for not more than 
24 hours at controlled room temperature (see General No- 
tices and Requirements), for not more than 3 days at a cold 
temperature (see General Notices and Requirements), and for 
45 days in solid frozen state between —25° and —1 0°. 
NOTE—Sterility tests for autoclaved CSPs are not required 
unless they are prepared in batches of more than 25 units.] 

All nonsterile measuring, mixing, and purifying devices are 
rinsed thoroughly with sterile, pyrogen-free water, and then 
thoroughly drained or dried immediately before use for 
high-risk compounding. All high-risk level CSP solutions sub- 
jected to terminal sterilization are prefiltered by passing 
through a filter with a nominal pore size not larger than 1 .2 
jim preceding or during filling into their final containers to 
remove particulate matter. Sterilization of high-risk level 
CSPs by filtration shall be performed with a sterile 0.2-lim or 
0.22-jim nominal pore size filter entirely within an ISO Class 
5 (see Table 1) or superior air quality environment. 

Examples of High-Risk Conditions— 
1. Dissolving nonsterile bulk drug and nutrient powders 

to make solutions that will be terminally sterilized. 
2. Exposing the sterile ingredients and components used 

to prepare and package CSPs to room air quality 
worse than ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) for more than 
1 hour (see Immediate-Use CSPs). 

3. Measuring and mixing sterile ingredients in nonsterile 
devices before sterilization is performed. 

4. Assuming, without appropriate evidence or direct de- 
termination, that packages of bulk ingredients contain 
at least 95% by weight of their active chemical moi- 
ety and have not been contaminated or adulterated 
between uses. 

Quality Assurance—Quality assurance procedures for 
high-risk level CSPs include all those for low-risk level CSPs. 
In addition, a media-fill test that represents high-risk level 
compounding is performed semiannually by each person 
authorized to compound high-risk level CSPs. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure for CSPs Sterilized by 
Filtration—This test or an equivalent test is performed 
under conditions that closely simulate the most challenging 
or stressful conditions encountered when compoundin 
high-risk level CSPs. Once begun, this test is complete 
without interruption. Example of test procedure (in the fol- 
lowing sequence): 

1. Dissolve 3 g of nonsterile commercially available 
Soybean—Casein Digest Medium in 100 rnL of 
nonbacteriostatic water to make a 3% nonsterile 
solution. 

2. Draw 25 mL of the medium into each of three 30-rnL 
sterile syringes. Transfer 5 mL from each syringe into 
separate sterile 1 0-mL vials. These vials are the posi- 
tive controls to generate exponential microbial 
growth, which is indicated by visible turbidity upon 
incubation. 

3. Under aseptic conditions and using aseptic tech- 
niques, affix a sterile 0.2-jim or 0.22-jim nominal 
pore size filter unit and a 20-gauge needle to each 
syringe. Inject the next 10 mL from each syringe into 
three separate 1 0-mL sterile vials. Repeat the process 
for three more vials. Label all vials, affix sterile adhe- 
sive seals to the closure of the nine vials, and incu- 
bate them at 20° to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a mini- 
mum of 14 days. If two temperatures are used for 
incubation of media-filled samples, then these filled 
containers should be incubated for at least 7 days at 
each temperature (see Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments 
(1116)). Inspect for microbial growth over 14 days as 
described in Personnel Training and Competency Evalu- 
ation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/ 
Disinfection Procedures. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 7 

PERSONNEL TRAINING AND EVALUATION IN 
ASEPTIC MANIPULATION SKILLS 

Personnel who prepare CSPs shall be trained conscien- 
tiously and skillfully by expert personnel and through audi- 
o—video instructional sources and professional publications 
in the theoretical principles and practical skills of aseptic ma- 
nipulations and in achieving and maintaining ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1) environmental conditions before they begin to 
prepare CSPs. Compounding personnel shall perform didac- 
tic review and pass written and media-fill testing of aseptic 
manipulative skills initially, at least annually thereafter for 
low- and medium-risk level compounding, and semiannually 
for high-risk level compounding. Compounding personnel 
who fail written tests or whose media-fill test vials result in 
gross microbial colonization shall be immediately re-in- 
structed and re-evaluated by expert compounding personnel 
to ensure correction of all aseptic practice deficiencies. 

Media-Fill Challenge Testing—The skill of personnel to 
aseptically prepare CSPs may be evaluated using sterile fluid 
bacterial culture media-fill 3 (i.e., sterile bacterial 
culture medium transfer via a sterile syringe and needle). 
Media-fill testing is used to assess the quality of the aseptic 
skill of compounding personnel. Media-fill tests represent 
the most challenging or stressful conditions actually encoun- 
tered by the personnel being evaluated when they prepare 
particular risk level CSPs and when sterilizing high-risk level 
CSPs. Media-fill challenge tests that simulate high-risk level 
compounding are also used to verify the capability of the 
compounding environment and process to produce a sterile 
preparation. 

Commercially available sterile fluid culture media, such as 
Soybean—Casein Digest Medium (see Sterility Tests (71 )), 
shall be able to promote exponential colonization of bacte- 
ria that are most likely to be transmitted to CSPs from the 
compounding personnel and environment. Media-filled vials 
are generally incubated at 20° to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a 
minimum of 14 days. If two temperatures are used for incu- 
bation of media-filled samples, then these filled containers 
should be incubated for at least 7 days at each temperature 
(see Microbiological Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other 
Controlled Environments (111 6)). Failure is indicated by visi- 
ble turbidity in the medium on or before 14 days. 

IMMEDIATE-USE CSPs 

The immediate-use provision is intended only for those 
situations where there is a need for emergency or immedi- 
ate patient administration of a CSP. Such situations may in- 
clude cardiopulmonary resuscitation, emergency room treat- 
ment, preparation of diagnostic agents, or critical therapy 
where the preparation of the CSP under conditions de- 
scribed for Low-Risk Level CSPs subjects the patient to addi- 
tional risk due to delays in therapy. Immediate-use CSPs are 
not intended for storage for anticipated needs or batch 
compounding. Preparations that are medium-risk level and 
high-risk level CSPs shall not be prepared as immediate-use 
CS Ps. 

Immediate-use CSPs are exempt from the requirements 
described for Low-Risk Level CSPs only when all of the fol- 
lowing criteria are met: 

1. The compounding process involves simple transfer of 
not more than three commercially manufactured 
packages of sterile nonhazardous products or diag- 
nostic radiopharmaceutical products from the manu- 
facturers' original containers and not more than two 
entries into any one container or package (e.g., bag, 
vial) of sterile infusion solution or administration con- 
tainer/device. For example, anti-neoplastics shall not 
be prepared as immediate-use CSPs because they are 
hazardous drugs. 

2. Unless required for the preparation, the compound- 
ing procedure is a continuous process not to exceed 
1 hour. 

3. During preparation, aseptic technique is followed 
and, if not immediately administered, the finished 
CSP is under continuous supervision to minimize the 
potential for contact with nonsterile surfaces, intro- 
duction of particulate matter or biological fluids, mix- 
ups with other CSPs, and direct contact of outside 
surfaces. 

4. Administration begins not later than 1 hour following 
the start of the preparation of the CSP. 

5. Unless immediately and completely administered by 
the person who prepared it or immediate and com- 
plete administration is witnessed by the preparer, the 
CSP shall bear a label listing patient identification in- 
formation, the names and amounts of all ingredients, 
the name or initials of the person who prepared the 
CSP, and the exact 1-hour BUD and time. 

6. If administration has not begun within 1 hour follow- 
ing the start of preparing the CSP, the CSP shall be 
promptly, properly, and safely discarded. 

Compounding in worse than ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
conditions increases the likelihood of microbial contamina- 
tion, and administration durations of microbially contami- 
nated CSPs exceeding a few hours increase the potential for 
clinically significant microbial colonization and thus for pa- 
tient harm, especially in critically ill or immunocompromised 
patients. 

SINGLE-DOSE AND MULTIPLE-DOSE 
CONTAINERS 

Opened or needle-punctured single-dose containers, such 
as bags, bottles, syringes, and vials of sterile products and 
CSPs shall be used within 1 hour if opened in worse than 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality (see Immediate-Use 
CSPs), and any remaining contents must be discarded. Sin- 
gle-dose vials exposed to ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) or 
cleaner air may be used up to 6 hours after initial needle 
puncture. Opened single-dose ampuls shall not be stored 
for any time period. Multiple-dose containers (e.g., vials) are 
formulated for removal of portions on multiple occasions 
because they usually contain antimicrobial preservatives. The 
BUD after initially entering or opening (e.g., needle-punc- 
tured) multiple-dose containers is 28 days (see Antimicrobial 
Effectiveness Testing (51)) unless otherwise specified by the 
manufacturer. 

HAZARDOUS DRUGS AS CSPs 

Although the potential therapeutic benefits of com- 
pounded sterile hazardous drug preparations generally out- 
weigh the risks of their adverse effects in ill patients, ex- 
posed healthcare workers risk similar adverse effects with no 
therapeutic benefit. Occupational exposure to hazardous 
drugs can result in (1) acute effects, such as skin rashes; (2) 
chronic effects, including adverse reproductive events; and 
(3) possibly cancer (see Appendix A of NIOSH Publication 
no. 2004-1 65). 

Hazardous drugs shall be prepared for administration only 
under conditions that protect the healthcare workers and 
other personnel in the preparation and storage areas. Haz- 
ardous drugs shall be stored separately from other inventory 
in a manner to prevent contamination and personnel expo- 
sure. Many hazardous drugs have sufficient vapor pressures 
that allow volatilization at room temperature; thus storage is 
preferably within a containment area such as a negative 
pressure room. The storage area should have sufficient gen- 



8 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

eral exhaust ventilation, at least 12 air changes per hour 
(ACPH)4 to dilute and remove any airborne contaminants. 

Hazardous drugs shall be handled with caution at all 
times using appropriate chemotherapy gloves during receiv- 
ing, distribution, stocking, inventorying, preparation for ad- 
ministration, and disposal. Hazardous drugs shall be pre- 
pared in an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment with 
protective engineering controls in place and following asep- 
tic practices specified for the appropriate contamination risk 
levels defined in this chapter. Access shall be limited to ar- 
eas where drugs are stored and prepared to protect persons 
not involved in drug preparation. 

All hazardous drugs shall be prepared in a 5 or a CACI 
that meets or exceeds the standards for CACI in this chap- 
ter. The ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) BSC or CACI shall be 
placed in an ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) area that is physically 
separated (i.e., a different area from other preparation areas) 
and optimally has not less than 0.01-inch water column 
negative pressure to adjacent positive pressure ISO Class 7 
(see Table 1) or better ante-areas, thus providing inward air- 
flow to contain any airborne drug. A pressure indicator shall 
be installed that can be readily monitored for correct room 
pressurization. The BSC and CACI optimally should be 100% 
vented to the outside air through HEPA filtration. 

If a CACI that meets the requirements of this chapter is 
used outside of a buffer area, the compounding area shall 
maintain a minimum negative pressure of 0.01-inch water 
column and have a minimum of 12 ACPHs. 

When closed-system vial-transfer devices (CSTD5) (i.e., 
vial-transfer systems that allow no venting or exposure of 
hazardous substance to the environment) are used, they 
shall be used within the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environ- 
ment of a BSC or CAd. The use of a CSTD is preferred 
because of their inherent closed system process. In facilities 
that prepare a low volume of hazardous drugs, the use of 
two tiers of containment (e.g., CSTD within a BSC or CACI 
that is located in a non-negative pressure room) is accept- 
able. 

Appropriate personnel protective equipment (PPE) shall be 
worn when compounding in a BSC or CACI and when using 
CSTD devices. PPE should include gowns, face masks, eye 
protection, hair covers, shoe covers or dedicated shoes, 
double gloving with sterile chemo-type gloves, and compli- 
ance with manufacturers' recommendations when using a 
CACI. 

All personnel who compound hazardous drugs shall be 
fully trained in the storage, handling, and disposal of these 
drugs. This training shall occur prior to preparing or han- 
dling hazardous CSPs, and its effectiveness shall be verified 
by testing specific hazardous drugs preparation techniques. 
Such verification shall be documented for each person at 
least annually. This training shall include didactic overview 
of hazardous drugs, including mutagenic, teratogenic, and 
carcinogenic properties, and it shall include ongoing train- 
ing for each new hazardous drug that enters the market- 
place. Compounding personnel of reproductive capability 
shall confirm in writing that they understand the risks of 
handling hazardous drugs. The training shall include at least 
the following: (1) safe aseptic manipulation practices; (2) 
negative pressure techniques when utilizing a BSC or CACI; 
(3) correct use of CSTD devices; (4) containment, cleanup, 
and disposal procedures for breakages and spills; and (5) 
treatment of personnel contact and inhalation exposure. 

NOTE—Because standards of assay and unacceptable quanti- 
ties of contamination of each drug have not been established 
in the literature, the following paragraph is a recommendation 
only. Future standards will be adopted as these assay methods 
are developed and proven. 

In order to ensure containment, especially in operations 
preparing large volumes of hazardous drugs, environmental 
'Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities, Rec- 
ommendations of CDC and the Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advi- 
sory Committee (HICPAC), MMWR, vol. 52, no. RR-1 0, lune 6, 2003, figure 
3, pg. 12. 

NSF/ANSI 49. 

sampling to detect uncontained hazardous drugs should be 
performed routinely (e.g., initially as a benchmark and at 
least every 6 months or more often as needed to verify con- 
tainment). This sampling should include surface wipe sam- 
pling of the working area of BSCs and CACIs; counter tops 
where finished preparations are placed; areas adjacent to 
BSCs and CACIs, including the floor directly under the work- 
ing area; and patient administration areas. Common marker 
hazardous drugs that can be assayed include cyclophospha- 
mide, ifosfamide, methotrexate, and fluorouracil. If any 
measurable contamination (cyclophosphamide levels greater 
than 1 .00 ng per 2 have been found to cause human 
uptake) is found by any of these quality assurance proce- 
dures, practitioners shall make the decision to identify, doc- 
ument, and contain the cause of contamination. Such ac- 
tion may include retraining, thorough cleaning (utilizing 
high-pH soap and water), and improving engineering con- 
trols. Examples of improving engineering controls are (1) 
venting BSCs or CACIs 100% to the outside, (2) implement- 
ing a CSTD, or (3) re-assessing types of BSCs or CACIs. 

Disposal of all hazardous drug wastes shall comply with all 
applicable federal and state regulations. All personnel who 
perform routine custodial waste removal and cleaning activi- 
ties in storage and preparation areas for hazardous drugs 
shall be trained in appropriate procedures to protect them- 
selves and prevent contamination. 

RADIOPHARMACEUTICALS AS CSPs 

In the case of production of radiopharmaceuticals for pos- 
itron emission tomography (PET), general test chapter Radi- 
opharmaceuticals for Positron Emission Tomograph y—Com- 
pounding (823) supersedes this chapter. Upon release of a 
PET radiopharmaceutical as a finished drug product from a 
production facility, the further handling, manipulation, or 
use of the product will be considered compounding, and 
the content of this section and chapter is applicable. 

For the purposes of this chapter, radiopharmaceuticals 
compounded from sterile components in closed sterile con- 
tainers and with a volume of 100 mL or less for a single- 
dose injection or not more than 30 mL taken from a multi- 
ple-dose container (see Injections (1)) shall be designated as, 
and conform to, the standards for Low-Risk Level CSPs. 

These radiopharmaceuticals shall be compounded using 
appropriately shielded vials and syringes in a properly func- 
tioning and certified ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC located in 
an ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) or cleaner air environment to 
permit compliance with special handling, shielding, and 
negative air flow requirements. 

Radiopharmaceutical vials designed for multi-use, com- 
pounded with technetium-99m, exposed to ISO Class 5 (see 
Table 1) environment, and punctured by needles with no 
direct contact contamination may be used up to the time 
indicated by manufacturers' recommendations. Storage and 
transport of properly shielded vials of radiopharmaceutical 
CSPs may occur in a limited access ambient environment 
without a specific ISO class designation. 

Technetium-99m/molybdenum-99 generator systems shall 
be stored and eluted (operated) under conditions recom- 
mended by manufacturers and applicable state and federal 
regulations. Such generator systems shall be eluted in an 
ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) or cleaner air environment to per- 
mit special handling, shielding, and air flow requirements. 
To limit acute and chronic radiation exposure of inspecting 
personnel to a level that is as low as reasonably achievable 
(ALARA), direct visual inspection of radiopharmaceutical 
CSPs containing high concentrations of doses of radioactiv- 
ity shall be conducted in accordance with ALARA. 

Radiopharmaceuticals prepared as Low-Risk Level CSPs with 
12-Hour or Less BUD shall be prepared in a segregated com- 
pounding area. A line of demarcation defining the segre- 
gated compounding area shall be established. Materials and 
garb exposed in a patient care and treatment area shall not 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 9 

cross a line of demarcation into the segregated compound- 
ing area. 

ALLERGEN EXTRACTS AS CSPs 

Allergen extracts as CSPs are single-dose and multiple- 
dose intradermal or subcutaneous injections that are prepared 
by specially trained physicians and personnel under their di- 
rect supervision. Allergen extracts as CSPs are not subject to 
the personnel, environmental, and storage requirements for 
all CSP Microbial Contamination Risk Levels in this chapter 
only when all of the following criteria are met: 

1. The compounding process involves simple transfer via 
sterile needles and syringes of commercial sterile aller- 
gen products and appropriate sterile added sub- 
stances (e.g., glycerin, phenol in sodium chloride 
injection). 

2. All allergen extracts as CSPs shall contain appropriate 
substances in effective concentrations to prevent the 
growth of microorganisms. Nonpreserved allergen ex- 
tracts shall comply with the appropriate CSP risk level 
requirements in the chapter. 

3. Before beginning compounding activities, personnel 
perform a thorough hand-cleansing procedure by re- 
moving debris from under fingernails using a nail 
cleaner under running warm water followed by vigor- 
ous hand and arm washing to the elbows for at least 
30 seconds with either nonantimicrobial or antimicro- 
bial soap and water. 

4. Compounding personnel don hair covers, facial hair 
covers, gowns, and face masks. 

5. Compounding personnel perform antiseptic hand 
cleansing with an alcohol-based surgical hand scrub 
with persistent activity. 

6. Compounding personnel don powder-free sterile 
gloves that are compatible with sterile 70% isopropyl 
alcohol (IPA) before beginning compounding manipu- 
lations. 

7. Compounding personnel disinfect their gloves inter- 
mittently with sterile 70% IPA when preparing multi- 
ple allergen extracts as CSPs. 

8. Ampul necks and vial stoppers on packages of manu- 
factured sterile ingredients are disinfected by careful 
wiping with sterile 70% IPA swabs to ensure that the 
critical sites are wet for at least 10 seconds and al- 
lowed to dry before they are used to compound aller- 
gen extracts as CSPs. 

9. The aseptic compounding manipulations minimize di- 
rect contact contamination (e.g., from glove finger- 
tips, blood, nasal and oral secretions, shed skin and 
cosmetics, other nonsterile materials) of critical sites 
(e.g., needles, opened ampuls, vial stoppers). 

10. The label of each multiple-dose vial (MDV) of allergen 
extracts as CSPs lists the name of one specific patient 
and a BUD and storage temperature range that is as- 
signed based on manufacturers' recommendations or 
peer-reviewed publications. 

11. Single-dose allergen extracts as CSPs shall not be 
stored for subsequent additional use. 

Personnel who compound allergen extracts as CSPs must 
be aware of greater potential risk of microbial and foreign 
material contamination when allergen extracts as CSPs are 
compounded in compliance with the foregoing criteria in- 
stead of the more rigorous standards in this chapter for CSP 
Microbial Contamination Risk Levels. Although contaminated 
allergen extracts as CSPs can pose health risks to patients 
when they are injected intradermally or subcutaneously, these 
risks are substantially greater if the extract is inadvertently 
injected intravenously. 

VERIFICATION OF COMPOUNDING 
ACCURACY AND STERILITY 

The compounding procedures and sterilization methods 
for CSPs correspond to correctly designed and verified writ- 
ten documentation in the compounding facility. Verification 
requires planned testing, monitoring, and documentation to 
demonstrate adherence to environmental quality require- 
ments, personnel practices, and procedures critical to 
achieving and maintaining sterility, accuracy, and purity of 
finished CSPs. For example, sterility testing (see Test for Ste- 
rility of the Product To Be Examined under Sterility Tests (71)) 
may be applied to specimens of low- and medium-risk level 
CSPs, and standard self-contained biological indicators (BI) 
shall be added to nondispensable specimens of high-risk 
level CSPs before terminal sterilization for subsequent evalu- 
ation to determine whether the sterilization cycle was ade- 
quate (see Biological Indicators for Sterilization (1 035)). Pack- 
aged and labeled CSPs shall be visually inspected for 
physical integrity and expected appearance, including final 
fill amount. The accuracy of identities, concentrations, 
amounts, and purities of ingredients in CSPs shall be con- 
firmed by reviewing labels on packages, observing and doc- 
umenting correct measurements with approved and cor- 
rectly standardized devices, and reviewing information in 
labeling and certificates of analysis provided by suppliers. 
When the correct identity, purity, strength, and sterility of 
ingredients and components of CSPs cannot be confirmed 
(in cases of, for example, unlabeled syringes, opened am- 
puls, punctured stoppers of vials and bags, containers of 
ingredients with incomplete labeling), such ingredients and 
components shall be discarded immediately. 

Some individual ingredients, such as bulk drug sub- 
stances, are not labeled with expiration dates when they are 
stable indefinitely in their commercial packages under their 
labeled storage conditions. However, despite retaining full 
chemical stability, such ingredients may gain or lose mois- 
ture during storage and use. Changes in moisture content 
may require testing (see Loss on Drying (731)) to determine 
the correct amount to weigh for accurate content of active 
chemical moieties in CSPs (see Pharmaceutical Calculations in 
Prescription Compounding (11 60)). 

Although not required, a quantitative stability-indicating 
chemical assay is recommended to ensure compounding ac- 
curacy of CSPs, especially those that contain drug ingredi- 
ents with a narrow therapeutic plasma concentration range. 

Sterilization Methods 

The licensed healthcare professionals who supervise com- 
pounding shall be responsible for determining that the se- 
lected sterilization method (see Methods of Sterilization 
under Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Compendial Arti- 
cles (1211)) both sterilizes and maintains the strength, pu- 
rity, quality, and packaging integrity of CSPs. The selected 
sterilization process is obtained from experience and appro- 
priate information sources (e.g., see Sterilization and Sterility 
Assurance of Compendial Articles (1211 ))—and, preferably, 
verified wherever possible—to achieve sterility in the particu- 
lar CSPs. General guidelines for matching CSPs and compo- 
nents to appropriate sterilization methods include the 
following: 

1. CSPs have been ascertained to remain physically and 
chemically stable when subjected to the selected ster- 
ilization method. 

2. Glass and metal devices may be covered tightly with 
aluminum foil, then exposed to dry heat in an oven 
at a mean temperature of 250° for 30 minutes to 
achieve sterility and depyrogenation (see Dry-Heat 
Sterilization under Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of 
Compendia! Articles (1211) and Bacterial Endotoxins 
Test (85)). Such items are either used immediately or 
stored until use in an environment suitable for corn- 



1 0 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

pounding Low-Risk Level CSPs and Medium-Risk Level 
CSPs. 

3. Personnel ascertain from appropriate information 
sources that the sterile microporous membrane filter 
used to sterilize CSP solutions, during either com- 
pounding or administration, is chemically and physi- 
cally compatible with the CSP. 

STERILIZATION OF HIGH-RISK LEVEL CSPS BY FILTRATION 

Commercially available sterile filters shall be approved for 
human-use applications in sterilizing pharmaceutical fluids. 
Sterile filters used to sterilize CSPs shall be pyrogen free and 
have a nominal pore size of 0.2 or 0.22 jim. They shall be 
certified by the manufacturer to retain at least 1 microor- 
ganisms of a strain of Brevundimonas (Pseudomonas) 
diminuta on each square centimeter of upstream filter sur- 
face area under conditions similar to those in which the 
CSPs will be sterilized (see High-Risk Conditions in High-Risk 
Level CSPs). 

The compounding supervisor shall ensure, directly or from 
appropriate documentation, that the filters are chemically 
and physically stable at the pressure and temperature condi- 
tions to be used, that they have enough capacity to filter 
the required volumes, and that they will achieve sterility and 
maintain prefiltration pharmaceutical quality, including 
strength of ingredients of the specific CSP. The filter dimen- 
sions and liquid material to be sterile-filtered shall permit 
the sterilization process to be completed rapidly, without 
the replacement of the filter during the process. When CSPs 
are known to contain excessive particulate matter, a prefilter 
of larger nominal pore size membrane is placed upstream 
from the sterilizing filter to remove gross particulate con- 
taminants in order to maximize the efficiency of the steril- 
izing filter. 

Filter units used to sterilize CSPs shall also be subjected to 
manufacturers' recommended integrity test, such as the 
bubble point test. 

Compounding personnel shall ascertain that selected fil- 
ters will achieve sterilization of the particular CSPs being 
sterilized. Large deviations from usual or expected chemical 
and physical properties of CSPs (e.g., water-miscible alco- 
hols) may cause undetectable damage to filter integrity and 
shrinkage of microorganisms to sizes smaller than filter nom- 
inal pore size. 

STERILIZATION OF HIGH-RISK LEVEL CSPS BY STEAM 

The process of thermal sterilization employing saturated 
steam under pressure, or autoclaving, is the preferred 
method to terminally sterilize aqueous preparations that 
have been verified to maintain their full chemical and physi- 
cal stability under the conditions employed (see Steam Steril- 
ization under Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Com- 
pendia! Articles (1211)). To achieve sterility, all materials are 
to be exposed to steam at 121 0 under a pressure of about 1 

atmosphere or 15 psi for the duration verified by testing to 
achieve sterility of the items, which is usually 20 to 60 min- 
utes for CSPs. An allowance shall be made for the time re- 
quired for the material to reach 1210 before the sterilization 
exposure duration is timed. 

Not directly exposing items to pressurized steam may re- 
sult in survival of microbial organisms and spores. Before 
their sterilization, plastic, glass, and metal devices are tightly 
wrapped in low-particle-shedding paper or fabrics or sealed 
in envelopes that prevent poststerilization microbial penetra- 
tion. Immediately before filling ampuls and vials that will be 
steam sterilized, solutions are passed through a filter having 
a nominal pore size not larger than 1 .2 jim for removal of 
particulate matter. Sealed containers shall be able to gener- 
ate steam internally; thus, stoppered and crimped empty 
vials shall contain a small amount of moisture to generate 
steam. 

The description of steam sterilization conditions and dura- 
tion for specific CSPs shall be included in written documen- 
tation in the compounding facility. The effectiveness of 
steam sterilization shall be verified using appropriate BIs of 
Bacillus stearothermophilus (see Biological Indicators (1 035)) 
and other confirmation methods such as temperature-sens- 
ing devices (see Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Com- 
pendia! Articles (1 211) and Sterility Tests (71 )). 

STERILIZATION OF HIGH-RISK LEVEL CSPS BY DRY HEAT 

Dry heat sterilization is usually done as a batch process in 
an oven designed for sterilization. Heated filtered air shall be 
evenly distributed throughout the chamber by a blower de- 
vice. The oven should be equipped with a system for con- 
trolling temperature and exposure period. Sterilization by 
dry heat requires higher temperatures and longer exposure 
times than does sterilization by steam. Dry heat shall be 
used only for those materials that cannot be sterilized by 
steam, when either the moisture would damage the mate- 
rial or the material is impermeable. During sterilization, suffi- 
cient space shall be left between materials to allow for good 
circulation of the hot air. The description of dry heat sterili- 
zation conditions and duration for specific CSPs shall be in- 
cluded in written documentation in the compounding facil- 
ity. The effectiveness of dry heat sterilization shall be verified 
using appropriate BIs of Bacillus subtilis (see Biological Indica- 
tors (1035)) and other confirmation methods such as tem- 
perature-sensing devices (see Sterilization and Sterility Assur- 
ance of Compendia! Articles (1 211) and Sterility Tests (71 )). 
NOTE—Dry heat sterilization may be performed at a lower 
temperature than may be effective for depyrogenation]. 

Depyrogenation by Dry Heat 

Dry heat depyrogenation shall be used to render glass- 
ware or containers such as vials free from pyrogens as well 
as viable microbes. A typical cycle would be 30 minutes at 
250°. The description of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle 
and duration for specific load items shall be included in 
written documentation in the compounding facility. The ef- 
fectiveness of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle shall be 
verified using endotoxin challenge vials (ECV5). The bacterial 
endotoxin test should be performed on the ECVs to verify 
that the cycle is capable of achieving a 3-log reduction in 
endotoxin (see Sterilization and Sterility Assurance of Com- 
pendia! Articles (1 211) and Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85)). 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AND CONTROL 

Achieving and maintaining sterility and overall freedom 
from contamination of a CSP is dependent on the quality 
status of the components incorporated, the process utilized, 
personnel performance, and the environmental conditions 
under which the process is performed. The standards re- 
quired for the environmental conditions depend on the 
amount of exposure of the CSP to the immediate environ- 
ment anticipated during processing. The quality and control 
of environmental conditions for each risk level of operation 
are explained in this section. In addition, operations using 
nonsterile components require the use of a method of prep- 
aration designed to produce a sterile preparation. 

Exposure of Critical Sites 

Maintaining the sterility and cleanliness (i.e., freedom 
from sterile foreign materials) of critical sites is a primary 
safeguard for CSPs. Critical sites are locations that include 
any component or fluid pathway surfaces (e.g., vial septa, 
injection ports, beakers) or openings (e.g., opened ampuls, 
needle hubs) exposed and at risk of direct contact with air 
(e.g., ambient room or HEPA filtered), moisture (e.g., oral 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 11 

and mucosal secretions), or touch contamination. The risk 
of, or potential for, critical sites to be contaminated with 
microorganisms and foreign matter increases with increasing 
exposed area of the critical sites, the density or concentra- 
tion of contaminants, and exposure duration to worse than 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air. Examples include an opened 
ampul or vial stopper on a 1 0-mL or larger vial or an injec- 
tion port on a package of intravenous solution having an 
area larger than the point of a needle or the tip of a 
syringe. 

The nature of a critical site also affects the risk of contami- 
nation. The relatively rough, permeable surface of an elasto- 
meric closure retains microorganisms and other contami- 
nants after swabbing with a sterile 70% IPA pad more 
readily than does the smoother glass surface of the neck of 
an ampul. Therefore, the surface disinfection can be ex- 
pected to be more effective for an ampul. 

Protection of critical sites by precluding physical contact 
and airborne contamination shall be given the highest prior- 
ity in sterile compounding practice. Airborne contaminants, 
especially those generated by sterile compounding person- 
nel, are much more likely to reach critical sites than are 
contaminants that are adhering to the floor or other sur- 
faces below the work level. Furthermore, large and high- 
density particles that are generated and introduced by com- 
pounding manipulations and personnel have the potential 
to settle on critical sites even when those critical sites are 
exposed within ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air. 

ISO Class 5 Air Sources, Buffer Areas, and 
Ante-Areas 

The most common sources of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air 
quality for exposure of critical sites are horizontal and verti- 
cal LAFWs, CAIs, and CACIs. A clean room (see Microbiologi- 
cal Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environ- 
ments (111 6)) is a compounding environment that is 

supplied with HEPA or HEPA-filtered air that meets ISO Class 
7 (see Table 1), the access to which is limited to personnel 
trained and authorized to perform sterile compounding and 
facility cleaning. A buffer area is an area that provides at 
least ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) air quality. 

Figure 1 is a conceptual representation of the placement 
of an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC in a segregated com- 
pounding area used for low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or 
less BUD. This plan depicts the most critical operation area 
located within the PEC in a designated area (see definition 
of Segregated Compounding Area) separated from activities 
not essential to the preparation of CSPs. Placement of de- 
vices (e.g., computers, printers) and objects (e.g., carts, 
cabinets) that are not essential to compounding in the seg- 
regated area should be restricted or limited, depending on 
their effect on air quality in the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
PEC. 

Conceptual representation of USP 

Chapter <797> facility requirements 

Figure 1. Conceptual representation of the placement of an 
ISO Class 5 PEC in a segregated compounding area used for 

low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD. 

Figure 2 is a conceptual representation of the arrangement 
of a facility for preparation of CSPs categorized as low-, me- 
dium-, and high-risk level. The quality of the environmental 
air increases with movement from the outer boundary to 
the direct compounding area (DCA). Placement of devices 
in ante-areas and buffer areas is dictated by their effect on 
the designated environmental quality of atmospheres and 
surfaces, which shall be verified by monitoring (see Viable 
and Nonviable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing). It is the 
responsibility of each compounding facility to ensure that 
each source of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for 
exposure of critical sites and sterilization by filtration is prop- 
erly located, operated, maintained, monitored, and verified. 

Conceptual representation of USP 

Chapter <797> facility requirements 

Figure 2. Conceptual representation of the arrangement 
of a facility for preparation of CSPs categorized as low-, me- 

dium-, and high-risk level. 

Placement of devices (e.g., computers, printers) and ob- 
jects (e.g., carts, cabinets) that are not essential to com- 
pounding in buffer areas is dictated by their effect on the 
required environmental quality of air atmospheres and sur- 
faces, which shall be verified by monitoring (see Viable and 
Nonviable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing). It is the re- 
sponsibility of each compounding facility to ensure that 



1 2 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

each source of ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for 
exposure of critical sites and sterilization by filtration is prop- 
erly located, operated, maintained, monitored, and verified. 

Facility Design and Environmental Controls 

Compounding facilities are physically designed and envi- 
ronmentally controlled to minimize airborne contamination 
from contacting critical sites. These facilities shall also pro- 
vide a comfortable and well-lighted working environment, 
which typically includes a temperature of 20° or cooler, to 
maintain comfortable conditions for compounding person- 
nel to perform flawlessly when attired in the required asep- 
tic compounding garb. PECs typically include, but are not 
limited to, LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACIs, which provide an 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment for the exposure of 
critical sites. PECs shall maintain ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) or 
better conditions for 0.5-lim particles (dynamic operating 
conditions) while compounding CSPs. Secondary engineer- 
ing controls such as buffer areas and ante-areas generally 
serve as a core for the location of the PEC. Buffer areas are 
designed to maintain at least ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) con- 
ditions for 0.5-jim particles under dynamic conditions and 
ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) conditions for 0.5-jim and larger 
particles under dynamic conditions for the ante-areas. Air- 
borne contamination control is achieved in the PEC through 
the use of HEPA filters. The airflow in the PEC shall be unidi- 
rectional (laminar flow), and because of the particle collec- 
tion efficiency of the filter, the "first air" at the face of the 
filter is, for the purposes of aseptic compounding, free from 
airborne particulate contamination. HEPA-filtered air shall be 
supplied in critical areas (ISO Class 5, see Table 1) at a ve- 
locity sufficient to sweep particles away from the com- 
pounding area and maintain unidirectional airflow during 
operations. Proper design and control prevents turbulence 
and stagnant air in the critical area. In situ air pattern analy- 
sis via smoke studies shall be conducted at the critical area 
to demonstrate unidirectional airflow and sweeping action 
over and away from the product under dynamic conditions. 

The principles of HEPA-filtered unidirectional airflow in the 
work environment shall be understood and practiced in the 
compounding process in order to achieve the desired envi- 
ronmental conditions. Policies and procedures for maintain- 
ing and working within the PEC area shall be written and 
followed. The policies and procedures will be determined by 
the scope and risk levels of the aseptic compounding activi- 
ties utilized during the preparation of the CSPs. The CSP 
work environment is designed to have the cleanest work 
surfaces (PEC) located in a buffer area. The buffer area shall 
maintain at least ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) conditions for 
0.5-jim and larger particles under dynamic operating condi- 
tions. The room shall be segregated from surrounding, un- 
classified spaces to reduce the risk of contaminants being 
blown, dragged, or otherwise introduced into the filtered 
unidirectional airflow environment, and this segregation 
shall be continuously monitored. For rooms providing a 

physical separation through the use of walls, doors, and 
pass-throughs, a minimum differential positive pressure of 
0.02- to 0.05-inch water column is required. For buffer ar- 
eas not physically separated from the ante-areas, the princi- 
ple of displacement airflow shall be employed. This concept 
utilizes a low pressure differential, high airflow principle. Us- 
ing displacement airflow typically requires an air velocity of 
40 ft per minute or more from the buffer area across the 
line of demarcation into the ante-area. 

The displacement concept shall not be used for high-risk 
compounding.6 The PEC shall be placed within a buffer area 
in such a manner as to avoid conditions that could ad- 
versely affect their operation. For example, strong air cur- 
rents from opened doors, personnel traffic, or air streams 
from the HVAC systems can disrupt the unidirectional air- 
6 Iso 14644-4:2001 Cleanrooms and associated controlled environments— 
Design, construction, and start-up, Case Postale 56, CH-1 211 Geneve 20, 
Switzerland, tel. +41 22 749 01 11. 

flow in open-faced workbenches. The operators may also 
create disruptions in airflow by their own movements and 
by the placement of objects onto the work surface. The PEC 
shall be placed out of the traffic flow and in a manner to 
avoid disruption from the HVAC system and room cross- 
drafts. Room air exchanges are typically expressed as 
ACPHs. Adequate HEPA-filtered airflow supplied to the buffer 
area and ante-area is required to maintain cleanliness classi- 
fication during operational activity through the number of 
ACPHs. Factors that should be considered when determining 
air-change requirements include number of personnel work- 
ing in the room and compounding processes that generate 
particulates, as well as temperature effects. An ISO Class 7 
(see Table 1) buffer area and ante-area supplied with HEPA- 
filtered air shall receive an ACPH of not less than 30. The 
PEC is a good augmentation to generating air changes in 
the air supply of an area but cannot be the sole source of 
HEPA-filtered air. If the area has an ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
recirculating device, a minimum of 15 ACPHs through the 
area supply HEPA filters is adequate, providing the com- 
bined ACPH is not less than 30. More air changes may be 
required, depending on the number of personnel and 
processes. HEPA-filtered supply air shall be introduced at the 
ceiling, and returns should be mounted low on the wall, 
creating a general top-down dilution of area air with HEPA- 
filtered make-up air. Ceiling-mounted returns are not rec- 
ommended. All HEPA filters should be efficiency tested using 
the most penetrating particle size and should be leak tested 
at the factory and then leak tested again in situ after instal- 

Activities and tasks carried out within the buffer area shall 
be limited to only those necessary when working within a 

controlled environment. Only the furniture, equipment, sup- 
plies, and other material required for the compounding ac- 
tivities to be performed shall be brought into the area, and 
they shall be nonpermeable, nonshedding, cleanable, and 
resistant to disinfectants. Whenever such items are brought 
into the area, they shall first be cleaned and disinfected. 
Whenever possible, equipment and other items used in the 
buffer area shall not be taken out of the area except for 
calibration, servicing, or other activities associated with the 
proper maintenance of the item. 

The surfaces of ceilings, walls, floors, fixtures, shelving, 
counters, and cabinets in the buffer area shall be smooth, 
impervious, free from cracks and crevices, and nonshedding, 
thereby promoting cleanability and minimizing spaces in 
which microorganisms and other contaminants may accu- 
mulate. The surfaces shall be resistant to damage by disin- 
fectant agents. Junctures of ceilings to walls shall be coved 
or caulked to avoid cracks and crevices where dirt can accu- 
mulate. If ceilings consist of inlaid panels, the panels shall 
be impregnated with a polymer to render them impervious 
and hydrophobic, and they shall be caulked around each 
perimeter to seal them to the support frame. Walls may be 
constructed of flexible material (e.g., heavy gauge polymer), 
panels locked together and sealed, or of epoxy-coated gyp- 
sum board. Preferably, floors are overlaid with wide sheet 
vinyl flooring with heat-welded seams and coving to the 
sidewall. Dust-collecting overhangs, such as ceiling utility 
pipes, and ledges, such as windowsills, should be avoided. 
The exterior lens surface of ceiling lighting fixtures should 
be smooth, mounted flush, and sealed. Any other penetra- 
tions through the ceiling or walls shall be sealed. The buffer 
area shall not contain sources of water (sinks) or floor 
drains. Work surfaces shall be constructed of smooth, imper- 
vious materials, such as stainless steel or molded plastic, so 
that they are easily cleaned and disinfected. Carts should be 
of stainless steel wire, nonporous plastic, or sheet metal con- 
struction with good quality, cleanable casters to promote 
mobility. Storage shelving, counters, and cabinets shall be 
smooth, impervious, free from cracks and crevices, nonshed- 
7 By definition (lEST RP CC 001.4), HEPA filters are a minimum of 99.97% 
efficient when tested using 0.3-lim thermally generated particles and a pho- 
tometer or rated at their most penetrating particle size using a particle 
counter. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 3 

ding, cleanable, and disinfectable; their number, design, 
and manner of installation shall promote effective cleaning 
and disinfection. 

Placement of Primary Engineering Controls 

PECs (LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACIs) shall be located 
within a restricted access ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer 
area (see Figure 1), with the following CAI/CACI exceptions 
below: 

• Only authorized personnel and materials required for 
compounding and cleaning shall be permitted in the 
buffer area. 

• Presterilization procedures for high-risk level CSPs, such 
as weighing and mixing, shall be completed in no 
worse than an ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) environment. 

• PECs shall be located out of traffic patterns and away 
from room air currents that could disrupt the intended 
airflow patterns. 

CAIs and CACIs shall be placed in an ISO Class 7 (see 
Table 1) buffer area unless they meet all of the following 
conditions: 

• The isolator shall provide isolation from the room and 
maintain ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) during dynamic op- 
erating conditions, including transferring ingredients, 
components, and devices into and out of the isolator 
and during preparation of CSPs. 

• Particle counts sampled approximately 6 to 12 inches 
upstream of the critical exposure site shall maintain ISO 
Class 5 (see Table 1) levels during compounding opera- 
tions. 

• Not more than 3520 particles (0.5 and larger) per 3 shall be counted during material transfer, with the 
particle counter probe located as near to the transfer 
door as possible without obstructing the transfer.8 

It is incumbent on the compounding personnel to obtain 
documentation from the manufacturer that the CAI/CACI 
will meet this standard when located in environments where 
the background particle counts exceed ISO Class 8 (see Ta- 
ble 1) for and larger particles. When isolators are 
used for sterile compounding, the recovery time to achieve 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) air quality shall be documented 
and internal procedures developed to ensure that adequate 
recovery time is allowed after material transfer before and 
during compounding operations. 

If the PEC is a CAl or CACI that does not meet the re- 
quirements above or is a LAFW or BSC that cannot be lo- 
cated within an ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer area, then 
only low-risk level nonhazardous and radiopharmaceutical 
CSPs pursuant to a physician order for a specific patient 
may be prepared, and administration of the CSP shall com- 
mence within 12 hours of preparation or as recommended 
in the manufacturer's package insert, whichever is less. 

Viable and Nonviable Environmental Sampling 
(ES) Testing 

The ES program should provide information to staff and 
leadership to demonstrate that the PEC is maintaining an 
environment within the compounding area that consistently 
ensures acceptably low viable and nonviable particle levels. 
The compounding area includes the ISO Class 5 (see Table 
1) PEC (LAFW5, BSCs, CAIs, and CACI5), buffer areas, ante- 
areas, and segregated compounding areas. 

Environmental sampling shall occur as part a comprehen- 
sive quality management program and shall occur minimally 
under any of the following conditions: 

as part of the commissioning and certification of new 
facilities and equipment; 

8 Sample procedures are detailed in CETA Applications Guide CAG- 
002-2006—section 2.09. 

• following any servicing of facilities and equipment; 
• as part of the re-certification of facilities and equipment 

(i.e., every 6 months); 
• in response to identified problems with end products or 

staff technique; or 
• in response to issues with CSPs, observed compounding 

personnel work practices, or patient-related infections 
(where the CSP is being considered as a potential 
source of the infection). 

ENVIRONMENTAL NONVIABLE PARTICLE TESTI NC PROGRAM 

A program to sample nonviable airborne particles differs 
from that for viable particles in that it is intended to directly 
measure the performance of the engineering controls used 
to create the various levels of air cleanliness, for example, 
ISO Class 5, 7, or 8 (see Table 1). 

Engineering Control Performance Verification—PECs 
(LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACI5) and secondary engineering 
controls (buffer and ante-areas) are essential components of 
the overall contamination control strategy for aseptic com- 
pounding. As such, it is imperative that they perform as 
designed and that the resulting levels of contamination be 
within acceptable limits. Certification procedures such as 
those outlined in Certification Guide for Sterile Compounding 
Facilities (CAG-003-2006)9 shall be performed by a qualified 
individual no less than every 6 months and whenever the 
device or room is relocated or altered or major service to 
the facility is performed. 

Total Particle Counts—Certification that each ISO classi- 
fied area, for example, ISO Class 5, 7, and 8 (see Table 1), is 
within established guidelines shall be performed no less 
than every 6 months and whenever the LAFW, BSC, CAl, or 
CACI is relocated or the physical structure of the buffer area 
or ante-area has been altered. Testing shall be performed by 
qualified operators using current, state-of-the-art electronic 
equipment with results of the following: 

• ISO Class 5: not more than 3520 particles 0.5 urn and 
larger size per cubic meter of air for any LAFW, BSC, 
CAl, and CACI; 

• ISO Class 7: not more than 352,000 particles of 0.5 
size and larger per cubic meter of air for any buffer 
area; 

• ISO Class 8: not more than 3,520,000 particles or 0.5 
urn size and larger per cubic meter of air for any ante- 
area. 

All certification records shall be maintained and reviewed 
by supervising personnel or other designated employees to 
ensure that the controlled environments comply with the 
proper air cleanliness, room pressures, and ACPHs. 

PRESSURE DIFFERENTIAL MONITORING 

A pressure gauge or velocity meter shall be installed to 
monitor the pressure differential or airflow between the 
buffer area and the ante-area and between the ante-area 
and the general environment outside the compounding 
area. The results shall be reviewed and documented on a 

log at least every work shift (minimum frequency shall be at 
least daily) or by a continuous recording device. The pres- 
sure between the ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) and the general 
pharmacy area shall not be less than 5 Pa (0.02 inch water 
column). In facilities where low- and medium-risk level CSPs 
are prepared, differential airflow shall maintain a minimum 
velocity of 0.2 meters per second (40 feet per minute) be- 
tween buffer area and ante-area. 

Controlled Environment Testing Association, 1500 Sunday Drive, Ste. 102, 
Raleigh, NC 27607; www.CETAinternational.org. 



14 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

ENVIRONMENTAL VIABLE AIRBORNE PARTICLE TESTING 
PROGRAM 

The risk of contaminating a CSP prepared under low-risk 
level and medium-risk level conditions is highly dependent 
on proper hand hygiene and garbing practices, compound- 
ing personnel aseptic technique, and the presence of surface 
contamination, assuming that all work is performed in a cer- 
tified and properly functioning ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC 
and secondary engineering controls, ISO Class 7 (see Table 
1) buffer area, and ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) ante-area. 
High-risk level CSPs pose the greatest threat to patients be- 
cause compounding personnel are tasked with the require- 
ment of processing nonsterile components and devices in 
order to achieve sterility. 

A sampling program in conjunction with an observational 
audit is designed to evaluate the competency of compound- 
ing personnel work practices, allowing for the implementa- 
tion of corrective actions on an ongoing basis (see Personnel 
Training and Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work 
Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures). 

Sampling Plan—An appropriate environmental sampling 
plan shall be developed for airborne viable particles based 
on a risk assessment of compounding activities performed. 

Selected sampling sites shall include locations within each 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment and in the ISO Class 
7 and 8 (see Table 1) areas and in the segregated com- 
pounding areas at greatest risk of contamination (e.g., work 
areas near the ISO Class 5 see Table 1] environment, coun- 
ters near doors, pass-through boxes). The plan shall include 
sample location, method of collection, frequency of sam- 
pling, volume of air sampled, and time of day as related to 
activity in the compounding area and action levels. 

Review of the data generated during a sampling event 
may detect elevated amounts of airborne microbial bi- 
oburden; such changes may be indicative of adverse 
changes within the environment. It is recommended that 
compounding personnel refer to Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6) and 
the CDC's "Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control 
in Healthcare Facilities, 2003" for more information. 

Growth Medium—A general microbiological growth me- 
dium such as Soybean—Casein Digest Medium shall be used 
to support the growth of bacteria. Malt extract agar or 
some other media that supports the growth of fungi shall 
be used in high-risk level compounding environments. Me- 
dia used for surface sampling must be supplemented with 
additives to neutralize the effects of disinfecting agents 
(e.g., TSA with lecithin and polysorbate 80). 

Viable Air Sampling—Evaluation of airborne microorgan- 
isms using volumetric collection methods in the controlled 
air environments (LAFWs, CAIs, clean room or buffer areas, 
and ante-areas) shall be performed by properly trained indi- 
viduals for all compounding risk levels. 

Impaction shall be the preferred method of volumetric air 
sampling. Use of settling plates for qualitative air sampling 
may not be able to determine adequately the quality of air 
in the controlled environment. The settling of particles by 
gravity onto culture plates depends on the particle size and 
may be influenced by air movement. Consequently, the 
number of colony-forming units (cfu) on a settling plate 
may not always relate to the concentrations of viable parti- 
cles in the sampled environment. 

For low-, medium-, and high-risk level compounding, air 
sampling shall be performed at locations that are prone to 
contamination during compounding activities and during 
other activities such as staging, labeling, gowning, and 
cleaning. Locations shall include zones of air backwash tur- 
bulence within LAFW and other areas where air backwash 
turbulence may enter the compounding area (doorways, in 
and around ISO Class 5 see Table 1] PEC and environ- 
ments). Consideration should be given to the overall effect 
the chosen sampling method will have on the unidirectional 
airflow within a compounding environment. 

For low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD prepared 
in a PEC (LAFW5, BSCs, CAIs) that maintains an ISO Class 5 
(see Table 1), air sampling shall be performed at locations 
inside the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment and other 
areas that are in close proximity to the ISO Class 5 (see 
Table 1) environment during the certification of the PEC. 

Air Sampling Devices—There are a number of manufac- 
turers of electronic air sampling equipment. It is important 
that personnel refer to the manufacturer's recommended 
procedures when using the equipment to perform volumet- 
ric air procedures. The instructions in the manu- 
facturer's user s manual for verification and use of electric air 
samplers that actively collect volumes of air for evaluation 
must be followed. A sufficient volume of air (400 to 1000 
liters) shall be tested at each location in order to maximize 
sensitivity. The volumetric air sampling devices need to be 
serviced and calibrated as recommended by the manufac- 
tu rer. 

It is recommended that compounding personnel also refer 
to Methodology and Instrumentation for Quantitation of Viable 
Airborne Microorganisms under Microbiological Evaluation of 
Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments (111 6), 
which provides more information on the use of volumetric 
air samplers and volume of air that should be sampled to 
detect environmental bioburden excursions. 

Air Sampling Frequency and Process—Air sampling 
shall be performed at least semiannually (i.e., every 6 
months) as part of the re-certification of facilities and equip- 
ment. If compounding occurs in multiple locations within 
an institution (e.g., main pharmacy, satellites), environmen- 
tal sampling is required for each individual compounding 
area. A sufficient volume of air shall be sampled and the 
manufacturer's guidelines for use of the electronic air sam- 
pling equipment followed. Any facility construction or 
equipment servicing may require that air sampling be per- 
formed during these events. 

Incubation Period—At the end of the designated sam- 
pling or exposure period for air sampling activities, the mi- 
crobial growth media plates are recovered and their covers 
secured (e.g., taped), and they are inverted and incubated 
at a temperature and for a time period conducive to multi- 
plication of microorganisms. ISA should be incubated at 
30° to 35° for 48 to 72 hours. Malt extract agar or other 
suitable fungal media should be incubated at 26° to 30° for 
5 to 7 days. The number of discrete colonies of microorgan- 
isms are counted and reported as cfu and documented on 
an environmental sampling form. Counts from air sampling 
need to be transformed into cfu per cubic meter of air and 
evaluated for adverse trends. 

Action Levels, Documentation, and Data Evaluation— 
The value of viable microbial sampling of the air in the com- 
pounding environment is realized when the data are used to 
identify and correct an unacceptable situation. Sampling 
data shall be collected and reviewed on a periodic basis as a 
means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding 
environment. If an activity consistently shows elevated levels 
of microbial growth, competent microbiology personnel 
shall be consulted. 

Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level (see 
Table 2) should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of 
personnel work practices, cleaning procedures, operational 
procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic 
compounding location. An investigation into the source of 
the contamination shall be conducted. Sources could in- 
clude HVAC systems, damaged HEPA filters, and changes in 
personnel garbing or work practices. The source of the 
problem shall be eliminated, the affected area cleaned, and 
resampling performed. 

Counts of cfu are to be used as an approximate measure 
of the environmental microbial bioburden. Action levels are 
determined on the basis of cfu data gathered at each sam- 
pling location and trended over time. The numbers in Table 
2 should be used only as guidelines. Regardless of the num- 
ber of cfu identified in the pharmacy, further corrective ac- 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 5 

tions will be dictated by the identification of microorgan- 
isms recovered (at least the genus level) by an appropriate 
credentialed laboratory of any microbial bioburden captured 
as a cfu using an impaction air sampler. Highly pathogenic 
microorganisms (e.g., Gram-negative rods, coagulase posi- 
tive staphylococcus, molds and yeasts) can be potentially 
fatal to patients receiving CSPs and must be immediately 
remedied, regardless of cfu count, with the assistance of a 

competent microbiologist, infection control professional, or 
industrial hygienist. 

Table 2. Recommended Action Levels for 
Microbial Contamination* 

t(cfu per cubic meter 1000 liters] of air per plate) 

Classification Air Sample f 
ISO Class 5 > 1 

ISO Class 7 > 10 

ISO Class 8 or worse > 100 
* Guidance for Industry—Sterile Drug Products Produced by Aseptic 
Processing—Current Good Manufacturing Practice—US HHS, FDA Sep- 
tember 2004. 

Additional Personnel Requirements 

Food, drinks, and materials exposed in patient care and 
treatment areas shall not enter ante-areas, buffer areas, or 
segregated compounding areas where components and in- 
gredients of CSPs are present. When compounding activities 
require the manipulation of a patient's blood-derived or 
other biological material (e.g., radiolabeling a patient's or 
donor's white blood cells), the manipulations shall be clearly 
separated from routine material-handling procedures and 
equipment used in CSP preparation activities, and they shall 
be controlled by specific SOPs in order to avoid any cross- 
contamination. Packaged compounding supplies and com- 
ponents, such as needles, syringes, tubing sets, and small- 
and large-volume parenterals, should be uncartoned and 
wiped down with a disinfectant that does not leave a resi- 
due (e.g., sterile 70% IPA), when possible in an ante-area of 
ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) air quality, before being passed 
into the buffer areas. Personnel hand hygiene and garbing 
procedures are also performed in the ante-area, which may 
contain a sink that enables hands-free use with a closed sys- 
tem of soap dispensing to minimize the risk of extrinsic con- 
tamination. There shall be some demarcation designation 
that separates the ante-area from the buffer area. Adequate 
provision for performing antiseptic hand cleansing using an 
alcohol-based surgical hand scrub with persistent activity fol- 
lowed by the donning of sterile gloves should be provided 
after entry into the buffer area. 

Cleaning and Disinfecting the Compounding 
Area 

Environmental contact is a major source of microbial con- 
tamination of CSPs. Consequently, scrupulous attention to 
cleaning and disinfecting the sterile compounding areas is 
required to minimize this as a source of CSP contamination. 

The cleaning and disinfecting practices and frequencies in 
this section apply to ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) compounding 
areas for exposure of critical sites as well as buffer areas, 
ante-areas, and segregated compounding areas. Com- 
pounding personnel are responsible for ensuring that the 
frequency of cleaning is in accordance with the require- 
ments stated in Table 3 and determining the cleaning and 
disinfecting products to be used (see Appendix I). Any or- 
ganizational or institutional policies regarding disinfectant 
selection should be considered by compounding personnel. 
All cleaning and disinfecting practices and policies for the 
compounding of CSPs shall be included in written SOPs and 
shall be followed by all compounding personnel. 

The selection and use of disinfectants in healthcare facili- 
ties is guided by several properties, such as microbicidal ac- 
tivity, inactivation by organic matter, residue, and shelf life 
(see Appendix II). In general, highly toxic disinfectants, such 
as glutaraldehyde, are not used on housekeeping surfaces 
(e.g., floors, countertops). Many disinfectants registered by 
the EPA are one-step disinfectants. This means that the dis- 
infectant has been formulated to be effective in the pres- 
ence of light to moderate soiling without a pre-cleaning 
step. 

Surfaces in LAFWs, BSCs, CAIs, and CACIs, which are inti- 
mate to the exposure of critical sites, require disinfecting 
more frequently than do housekeeping surfaces such as 
walls and ceilings. Disinfecting sterile compounding areas 
shall occur on a regular basis at the intervals noted in Table 
3 when spills occur, when the surfaces are visibly soiled, and 
when microbial contamination is known to have been or is 
suspected of having been introduced into the compounding 
areas. 

When the surface to be disinfected has heavy soiling, a 

cleaning step is recommended prior to the application of 
the disinfectant. Trained compounding personnel are re- 
sponsible for developing, implementing, and practicing the 
procedures for cleaning and disinfecting the DCAs written in 
the SOPs. Cleaning and disinfecting shall occur before com- 
pounding is performed. Items shall be removed from all ar- 
eas to be cleaned, and surfaces shall be cleaned by remov- 
ing loose material and residue from spills; for example, 
water-soluble solid residues are removed with sterile water 
(for injection or irrigation) and low-shedding wipes. This 
shall be followed by wiping with a residue-free disinfecting 
agent such as sterile 70% IPA, which is allowed to dry 
before compounding begins. 

Cleaning and disinfecting surfaces in the LAFWs, BSCs, 
CAIs, and CACIs are the most critical practices before the 
preparation of CSPs. Consequently, such surfaces shall be 
cleaned and disinfected frequently, including at the begin- 
fling of each work shift, before each batch preparation is 
started, every 30 minutes during continuous compounding 
periods of individual CSPs, when there are spills, and when 
surface contamination is known or suspected from procedu- 
ral breaches. 

Work surfaces in the ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) buffer areas 
and ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) ante-areas as well as segre- 
gated compounding areas shall be cleaned and disinfected 
at least daily, and dust and debris shall be removed when 
necessary from storage sites for compounding ingredients 
and supplies using a method that does not degrade the ISO 
Class 7 or 8 (see Table 1) air quality (see Disinfectants and 
Antiseptics (1 072)). 

Table 3. Minimum Frequency of Cleaning and Disinfecting Com- 
pounding Areas 

Site Minimum Frequency 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 

Primary Engineering 
Control (e.g., LAFW, 
BSC, CAl, CACI) 

At the beginning of each shift, before 
each batch, not longer than 30 mm- 
utes following the previous surface 
disinfection when ongoing com- 
pounding activities are occurring, af- 
ter spills, and when surface 
contamination is known or suspected 

Counters and easily clean- 
able_work_surfaces 

Daily 

Floors Daily 

Walls Monthly 
Ceilings Monthly 
Storage shelving Monthly 

Floors in the buffer or clean area, ante-area, and segre- 
gated compounding area are cleaned by mopping with a 
cleaning and disinfecting agent once daily at a time when 
no aseptic operations are in progress. Mopping shall be per- 
formed by trained personnel using approved agents and 



1 6 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

procedures described in the written SOPs. It is incumbent 
on compounding personnel to ensure that such cleaning is 
performed properly. In the buffer or clean area, ante-area, 
and segregated compounding area, walls, ceilings, and 
shelving shall be cleaned and disinfected monthly. Cleaning 
and disinfecting agents are to be used with careful consider- 
ation of compatibilities, effectiveness, and inappropriate or 
toxic residues (see Appendix ). Their schedules of use and 
methods of application shall be in accordance with written 
SOPs and followed by custodial or compounding personnel. 

All cleaning materials, such as wipers, sponges, and mops, 
shall be nonshedding, preferably composed of synthetic 
micro fibers, and dedicated to use in the buffer or clean 
area, ante-area, and segregated compounding areas and 
shall not be removed from these areas except for disposal. 
Floor mops may be used in both the buffer or clean area 
and ante-area, but only in that order. Ideally, all cleaning 
tools are discarded after one use by collection in suitable 
plastic bags and removed with minimal agitation. If cleaning 
materials (e.g., mops) are reused, procedures shall be devel- 
oped (based on manufacturers' recommendations) that en- 
sure that the effectiveness of the cleaning device is main- 
tained and that repeated use does not add to the bioburden 
of the area being cleaned. 

Supplies and equipment removed from shipping cartons 
shall be wiped with a suitable disinfecting agent (e.g., sterile 
70% IPA) delivered from a spray bottle or other suitable 
delivery method. After the disinfectant is sprayed or wiped 
on a surface to be disinfected, the disinfectant shall be al- 
lowed to dry, during which time the item shall not be used 
for compounding purposes. 

Wiping with small sterile 70% IPA swabs that are commer- 
cially available in individual foil-sealed packages (or a com- 
parable method) is preferred for disinfecting entry points on 
bags and vials, allowing the IPA to dry before piercing stop- 
pers with sterile needles and breaking necks of ampuls. The 
surface of the sterile 70% IPA swabs used for disinfecting 
entry points of sterile packages and devices shall not contact 
any other object before contacting the surface of the entry 
point. Sterile 70% IPA wetted gauze pads or other particle- 
generating material shall not be used to disinfect the sterile 
entry points of packages and devices. 

When sterile supplies are received in sealed pouches de- 
signed to keep them sterile until opening, the sterile sup- 
plies may be removed from the covering pouches as the 
supplies are introduced into the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) 
PEC (LAFW, BSC, CAl, CACI) without the need to disinfect 
the individual sterile supply items. No shipping or other ex- 
ternal cartons may be taken into the buffer or clean area or 
segregated compounding area. 

Personnel Cleansing and Garbing 

The careful cleansing of hands and arms and the correct 
donning of PPE by compounding personnel constitute the 
first major step in preventing microbial contamination in 
CSPs. Personnel shall also be thoroughly competent and 
highly motivated to perform flawless aseptic manipulations 
with ingredients, devices, and components of CSPs. Squa- 
mous cells are normally shed from the human body at a 

rate of 1 06 or more per hour, and those skin particles are 
laden with 10 11 When individuals are exper- 
iencing rashes, sunburn, weeping sores, conjunctivitis, active 
respiratory infection, as well as when they wear cosmetics, 
they shed these particles at even higher rates. Particles shed 
from compounding personnel pose an increased risk of mi- 
crobial contamination of critical sites of CSPs. Therefore, 
compounding personnel with such conditions as mentioned 
above shall be excluded from working in ISO Class 5 (see 

10 Agalloco Akers JE. Aseptic Processing: A Vision of the Future. Pharmaceuti- 
cal Technology, 2005. Aseptic Processing supplement, Si 6. 
11 Eaton T. Microbial Risk Assessment for Aseptically Prepared Products. Am 
Pharm Rev. 2005; 8 (5, Sep/Oct): 46—5 1. 

Table 1) and ISO Class 7 (see Table 1) compounding areas 
until their conditions are remedied. 

Before entering the buffer area or segregated compound- 
ing area (see Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD), 
compounding personnel shall remove personal outer gar- 
ments (e.g., bandannas, coats, hats, jackets, scarves, sweat- 
ers, vests); all cosmetics, because they shed flakes and parti- 
cles; and all hand, wrist, and other visible jewelry or 
piercings (e.g., earrings, lip or eyebrow piercings) that can 
interfere with the effectiveness of PPE (e.g., fit of gloves and 
cuffs of sleeves). The wearing of artificial nails or extenders 
is prohibited while working in the sterile compounding envi- 
ronment. Natural nails shall be kept neat and trimmed. 

Personnel shall don the following PPE in an order that 
proceeds from those activities considered the dirtiest to 
those considered the cleanest. Garbing activities considered 
the dirtiest include donning of dedicated shoes or shoe cov- 
ers, head and facial hair covers (e.g., beard covers in addi- 
tion to face masks), and face masks/eye shields. Eye shields 
are optional unless working with irritants such as germicidal 
disinfecting agents or when preparing hazardous drugs. 

After donning dedicated shoes or shoe covers, head and 
facial hair covers, and face masks, a hand cleansing proce- 
dure shall be performed by removing debris from under- 
neath fingernails using a nail cleaner under running warm 
water followed by vigorous hand washing. Hands and fore- 
arms shall be washed to the elbows for at least 30 seconds 
with soap (either nonantimicrobial or antimicrobial) and 
water while in the ante-area. The use of antimicrobial scrub 
brushes is not recommended because they can cause skin 
irritation and skin damage. Hands and forearms to the 
elbows will be completely dried using either lint-free dispos- 
able towels or an electronic hand dryer. After completion of 
hand washing, a nonshedding gown with sleeves that fit 
snugly around the wrists and enclosed at the neck is 
donned. Gowns designated for buffer area use shall be 
worn, and preferably they should be disposable. If reusable 
gowns are worn, they should be laundered appropriately for 
buffer area use. 

Once inside the buffer area or segregated compounding 
area (see Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD), and 
prior to donning sterile powder-free gloves, antiseptic hand 
cleansing shall be performed using a waterless alcohol-based 
surgical hand scrub with persistent 12 following man- 
ufacturers' recommendations. Hands are allowed to dry 
thoroughly before donning sterile gloves. 

Sterile gloves shall be the last item donned before com- 
pounding begins. Gloves become contaminated when they 
contact nonsterile surfaces during compounding activities. 
Disinfection of contaminated gloved hands may be accom- 
plished by wiping or rubbing sterile 70% IPA to all contact 
surface areas of the gloves and letting the gloved hands dry 
thoroughly. Only use gloves that have been tested for com- 
patibility with alcohol disinfection by the manufacturer. Rou- 
tine application of sterile 70% IPA shall occur throughout 
the compounding process and whenever nonsterile surfaces 
(e.g. vials, counter tops, chairs, carts) are touched. Gloves 
on hands shall also be routinely inspected for holes, punc- 
tures, or tears and replaced immediately if such are de- 
tected. Antiseptic hand cleansing shall be performed as indi- 
cated above. Compounding personnel shall be trained and 
evaluated in the avoidance of touching critical sites. 

When compounding personnel exit the compounding 
area during a work shift, the exterior gown may be re- 
moved and retained in the compounding area if not visibly 
soiled, to be re-donned during that same work shift only. 
However, shoe covers, hair and facial hair covers, face 
masks/eye shields, and gloves shall be replaced with new 
ones before re-entering the compounding area, and proper 
hand hygiene shall be performed. 

During high-risk compounding activities that precede ter- 
minal sterilization, such as weighing and mixing of nonster- 
12 Guideline for Hand Hygiene in Health care Settings, MMWR, October 25, 
2002, vol. 51, No. RR-16 available on the Internet at http://www.cdc.gov/ 
handhygiene/. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 7 

lie ingredients, compounding personnel shall be garbed and 
gloved the same as when performing compounding in an 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment. Properly garbed and 
gloved compounding personnel who are exposed to air 
quality that is either known or suspected to be worse than 
ISO Class 7 (see Table 7) shall re-garb PPE along with wash- 
ing their hands properly, performing antiseptic hand cleans- 
ing with a waterless alcohol-based surgical hand scrub, and 
donning sterile gloves upon re-entering the ISO Class 7 (see 
Table 1) buffer area. When CAis and CACIs are the source of 
the ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) environment, the garbing and 
gloving requirements for compounding personnel should be 
as described above, unless the isolator manufacturer can 
provide written documentation based on validated environ- 
mental testing that any component(s) of PPE or personnel 
cleansing are not required. 

Personnel Training and Competency 
Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices, 

and Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures 

Personnel who prepare CSPs shall be trained conscien- 
tiously and skillfully by expert personnel and through mul- 
timedia instructional sources and professional publications in 
the theoretical principles and practical skills of garbing pro- 
cedures, aseptic work practices, achieving and maintaining 
ISO Class 5 (see Table 7) environmental conditions, and 
cleaning and disinfection procedures. This training shall be 
completed and documented before any compounding per- 
sonnel begin to prepare CSPs. Compounding personnel 
shall complete didactic training, pass written competence 
assessments, undergo skill assessment using observational 
audit tools, and media-fill testing (see Appendices Ill—ti). 

Media-fill testing of aseptic work skills shall be performed 
initially before beginning to prepare CSPs and at least annu- 
ally thereafter for low- and medium-risk level compounding 
and semiannually for high-risk level compounding. 

Compounding personnel who fail written tests or observa- 
tional audits or whose media-fill test vials have one or more 
units showing visible microbial contamination shall be re- 
instructed and re-evaluated by expert compounding person- 
nel to ensure correction of all aseptic work practice deficien- 
cies. Compounding personnel shall pass all evaluations prior 
to resuming compounding of sterile preparations. in addi- 
tion to didactic evaluation and aseptic media fill, com- 
pounding personnel must demonstrate proficiency of proper 
hand hygiene, garbing, and consistent cleaning procedures. 

in the event that cleaning and disinfecting procedures are 
also performed by other support personnel (e.g., institu- 
tional environmental services, housekeeping), thorough 
training of proper hand hygiene, garbing, and cleaning and 
disinfection procedures shall be done by a qualified aseptic 
compounding expert. After completion of training, support 
personnel shall routinely undergo performance evaluation of 
proper hand hygiene, garbing, and all applicable cleaning 
and disinfecting procedures conducted by a qualified aseptic 
compounding expert. 

COMPETENCY EVALUATION OF GARBiNG AND ASEPTIC 

WORK PRACTICE 

The risk of contaminating a CSP prepared under low-risk 
level and medium-risk level conditions is highly dependent 
on proper hand hygiene and garbing practices, compound- 
ing personnel aseptic technique, and the presence of surface 
contamination, assuming that all work is performed in a cer- 
tified and properly functioning ISO Class 5 (see Table 1) PEC 
and secondary engineering controls, ISO Class 7 (see Table 
7) buffer area, and ISO Class 8 (see Table 1) ante-area. 
High-risk level CSPs pose the greatest threat to patients be- 
cause compounding personnel are tasked with the require- 
ment of processing nonsterile components and devices in 
order to achieve sterility. Compounding personnel shall be 

evaluated initially prior to beginning compounding CSPs 
and whenever an aseptic media fill is performed using a 
form such as the Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene 
and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding Personnel (see 
Appendix Ill) and the personnel glove fingertip sampling 
procedures indicated below. 

Aseptic Work Practice Assessment and Evaluation via 
Personnel Glove Fingertip Sampling—Sampling of com- 
pounding personnel glove fingertips shall be performed for 
all CSP risk level compounding because direct touch con- 
tamination is the most likely source of introducing microor- 
ganisms into CSPs prepared by humans. Glove fingertip 
sampling shall be used to evaluate the competency of per- 
sonnel in performing hand hygiene and garbing procedures 
in addition to educating compounding personnel on proper 
work practices, which include frequent and repeated glove 
disinfection using sterile 70% IPA during actual compound- 
ing of CSPs. All personnel shall demonstrate competency in 
proper hand hygiene and garbing procedures and in aseptic 
work practices (e.g., disinfection of component surfaces, 
routine disinfection of gloved hands). 

Sterile contact agar plates shall be used to sample the 
gloved fingertips of compounding personnel after garbing 
in order to assess garbing competency and after completing 
the media-fill preparation (without applying sterile 70% IPA) 
in order to assess the adequacy of aseptic work practices 
prior to being initially allowed to prepare CSPs for human 
use and for more experienced personnel to maintain their 
qualifications to prepare CSPs for human use. 

Garbing And Gloving Competency Evaluation—Com- 
pounding personnel shall be visually observed during the 
process of performing hand hygiene and garbing proce- 
dures (see Personnel Cleansing and Garbing under Personnel 
Training and Evaluation in Aseptic Manipulation Skills above). 
The visual observation shall be documented on a form such 
as the Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing 
Related Practices of Compounding Personnel (see Appendix Ill) 
and maintained to provide a permanent record and long- 
term assessment of personnel competency. 

Gloved Fingertip Sampling—All compounding person- 
nel shall successfully complete an initial competency evalua- 
tion and gloved fingertip/thumb sampling procedure (zero 
cfu) no less than three times before initially being allowed 
to compound CSPs for human use. Immediately after the 
compounding employee completes the hand hygiene and 
garbing procedure (e.g., donning of sterile gloves prior to 
any disinfection with sterile 70% IPA), the evaluator will col- 
lect a gloved fingertip and thumb sample from both hands 
of the compounding employee onto appropriate agar plates 
by lightly pressing each fingertip into the agar. The plates 
will be incubated for the appropriate incubation period and 
at the appropriate temperature (see Incubation Period). After 
completing the initial gowning and gloving competency 
evaluation, re-evaluation of all compounding personnel for 
this competency shall occur at least annually for personnel 
who compound low- and medium-risk level CSPs and semi- 
annually for personnel who compound high-risk level CSPs 
using one or more sample collections during any media-fill 
test procedure before they are allowed to continue com- 
pounding CSPs for human use. 

Immediately prior to sampling, gloves shall not be disin- 
fected with sterile 70% IPA. Disinfecting gloves immediately 
before sampling will provide false negative results. Plates 
filled with nutrient agar with neutralizing agents such as lec- 
ithin and polysorbate 80 added shall be used when sam- 
pling personnel fingertips. Personnel shall "touch" the agar 
with the fingertips of both hands in separate plates in a 

manner to create a slight impression in the agar. The sam- 
pled gloves shall be immediately discarded and proper hand 
hygiene performed after sampling. The nutrient agar plates 
shall be incubated as stated below (see Incubation Period). 
Results should be reported separately as number of cfu per 
employee per hand (left hand, right hand). The cfu action 



1 8 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

level for gloved hands will be based on the total number of 
cfu on both gloves, not per hand. 

Incubation Period—At the end of the designated sam- 
pling period for compounding personnel competency as- 
sessment activities (surface or personnel), the agar plates are 
recovered and covers secured and they are inverted and in- 
cubated at a temperature and for a time period conducive 
to multiplication of microorganisms. TSA with lecithin and 
polysorbate 80 shall be incubated at 300 to 35° for 48 to 
72 hours. 

Aseptic Manipulation Competency Evaluation—After 
successful completion of an initial Hand Hygiene and Garb- 
ing Competency Evaluation, all compounding personnel 
shall have their aseptic technique and related practice com- 
petency evaluated initially during the Media-Fill Test Proce- 
dure and subsequent annual or semi-annual Media-Fill Test 
Procedures. Records of these evaluations will be maintained 
using a form such as the Sample Form for Assessing Aseptic 
Technique and Related Practices of Compounding Personnel 
(see Appendix IV) and maintained to provide a permanent 
record of and long-term assessment of personnel compe- 
tency. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure—The skill of personnel to asepti- 
cally prepare CSPs shall be evaluated using sterile fluid bac- 
terial culture media-fill verification, (i.e., sterile bacterial cul- 
ture medium transfer via a sterile syringe and needle). 
Media-fill testing is used to assess the quality of the aseptic 
skill of compounding personnel. Media-fill tests shall repre- 
sent the most challenging or stressful conditions actually en- 
countered by the personnel being evaluated when they pre- 
pare low- and medium-risk level CSPs and when sterilizing 
high-risk level CSPs. Media-fill challenge tests are also used 
to verify the capability of the compounding environment 
and processes to produce sterile preparations. 

A commercially available sterile fluid culture media, such 
as Soybean—Casein Digest Medium (see Sterility Tests (71 )), 
that is able to promote exponential colonization of bacteria 
that are most likely to be transmitted to CSPs from the 
compounding personnel and environment is commonly 
used. For high-risk level CSPs nonsterile commercially availa- 
ble Soybean—Casein Digest Medium may be used to make a 

3% solution. Normal processing steps, including filter sterili- 
zation, shall be mimicked. Media-filled vials shall be incu- 
bated at 20° to 25° or at 30° to 35° for a minimum of 14 
days. If two temperatures are used for incubation of media- 
filled samples, then these filled containers should be incu- 
bated for at least 7 days at each temperature (see Microbio- 
logical Evaluation of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Envi- 
ronments (111 6)). Failure is indicated by visible turbidity in 
any one of the media-fill units on or before 14 days. Other 
methodologies recommended by a competent microbiolo- 
gist to enhance recovery time and sensitivity to detect mi- 
crobial contamination may be considered (see CSP Microbial 
Contamination Risk Levels for examples of media-fill 
procedures). 

SURFACE CLEANING AND DISINFECTION SAMPLING AND 
ASSESSMENT 

Surface sampling is an important component of the main- 
tenance of a suitable microbially controlled environment for 
compounding CSPs, especially since transfer of microbial 
contamination from improperly disinfected work surfaces via 
inadvertent touch contact by compounding personnel can 
be a potential source of contamination into CSPs. It is useful 
for evaluating facility and work surface cleaning and disin- 
fecting procedures and employee competency in work prac- 
tices such as disinfection of component/vial surface clean- 
ing. Surface sampling shall be performed in all ISO classified 
areas on a periodic basis. Sampling can be accomplished 
using contact plates or swabs, and it shall be done at the 
conclusion of compounding. Locations to be sampled shall 
be defined in a sample plan or on a form. The size of the 

plate to be used for each sampled location usually ranges 
from 24 to 30 . Contact plates are filled with general 
solid agar growth medium and neutralizing agents above 
the rim of the plate, and they are used for sampling regular 
or flat surfaces. Swabs may be used for sampling irregular 
surfaces, especially for equipment (see Microbiological Evalu- 
ation of Clean Rooms and Other Controlled Environments 
(1116)). 

Cleaning and Disinfecting Competency Evaluation— 
Compounding personnel and other personnel responsible 
for cleaning shall be visually observed during the process of 
performing cleaning and disinfecting procedures, during ini- 
tial personnel training on cleaning procedures, during 
changes in cleaning staff, and at the completion of any me- 
dia-fill test procedure (see Cleaning and Disinfecting of Com- 
pounding Areas). 

The visual observation shall be documented using a form 
such as the Sample Form for Assessing Cleaning and Disinfec- 
tion Procedures (see Appendix t') and maintained to provide a 
permanent record and long-term assessment of personnel 
competency. 

Surface Collection Methods—To sample surfaces using 
a contact plate, gently touch the sample area with the agar 
surface and roll the plate across the surface to be sampled. 
The contact plate will leave a growth media residue behind; 
therefore, immediately after sampling with the contact 
plate, the sampled area shall be thoroughly wiped with a 
nonshedding wipe soaked in sterile 70% IPA. 

If an area is sampled via the swab method, collection of 
the sample is processed by using appropriate procedures 
that will result in the surface location equivalent to that of a 

contact plate. After swabbing the surface to be sampled, 
swabs are placed in an appropriate diluent; an aliquot is 
planted on or in the specified nutrient agar. Results should 
be reported as cfu per unit of surface area. 

Action Levels, Documentation, and Data 
Evaluation 

The value of viable microbial monitoring of gloved finger- 
tips and surfaces of components and the compounding en- 
vironment are realized when the data are used to identify 
and correct an unacceptable work practice. Sampling data 
shall be collected and reviewed on a routine basis as a 

means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding 
environment. If an activity consistently shows elevated levels 
of microbial growth, competent microbiology personnel 
shall be consulted. 

Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level (see 
Table 4) should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of 
personnel work practices, cleaning procedures, operational 
procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic 
compounding location. An investigation into the source of 
the contamination shall be conducted. Sources could in- 
clude HVAC systems, damaged HEPA filters, and changes in 
personnel garbing or working practices. The source of the 
problem shall be eliminated, the affected area cleaned, and 
resampling performed. 

When gloved fingertip sample results exceed action levels 
after proper incubation, a review of hand hygiene and garb- 
ing procedures as well as glove and surface disinfection pro- 
cedures and work practices shall be performed and docu- 
mented. Employee training may be required to correct the 
source of the problem. 

Counts of cfu are to be used as an approximate measure 
of the environmental microbial bioburden. Action levels are 
determined on the basis of cfu data gathered at each sam- 
pling location and trended over time. The numbers in Table 
4 should be used only as guidelines. Regardless of the num- 
ber of cfu identified in the compounding facility, further 
corrective actions will be dictated by the identification of 
microorganisms recovered (at least the genus level) by an 
appropriate credentialed laboratory of any microbial bi- 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 1 9 

oburden captured as a cfu using an impaction air sampler. 
Highly pathogenic microorganisms (e.g., Gram-negative 
rods, coagulase positive staphylococcus, molds and yeasts) 
can be potentially fatal to patients receiving CSPs and shall 
be immediately remedied, regardless of cfu count, with the 
assistance of a competent microbiologist, infection control 
professional, or industrial hygienist. 

Table 4. Recommended Action Levels for Microbial 
Contamlnatlon* 

Classification 
Fingertip 
Sample 

Surface Sample (Contact 
Plate) 

(cfu per 
ISOClass5 >3 >3 
ISO Class 7 N/A > 5 

ISO Class 8 or 
worse 

N/A >100 

* Pharmaceutical Inspection Co-operation Scheme (PIC/S) Guide to 
Good Manufacturing Practice for Medicinal Products Annexes PE 

009-6, 5 April 2007. 

SUGGESTED STANDARD OPERATING 
PROCEDURES (SOPs) 

The compounding facility shall have written, properly ap- 
proved SOPs designed to ensure the quality of the environ- 
ment in which a CSP is prepared. The following procedures 
are recommended: 

1. Access to the buffer area is restricted to qualified per- 
sonnel with specific responsibilities or assigned tasks 
in the compounding area. 

2. All cartoned supplies are decontaminated in the area 
by removing them from shipping cartons and wiping 
or spraying them with a nonresidue-generating disin- 
fecting agent while they are being transferred to a 
clean and properly disinfected cart or other convey- 
ance for introduction into the buffer area. Manufac- 
turers' directions or published data for minimum con- 
tact time will be followed. Individual pouched sterile 
supplies need not be wiped because the pouches can 
be removed as these sterile supplies are introduced 
into the buffer area. 

3. Supplies that are required frequently or otherwise 
needed close at hand but not necessarily needed for 
the scheduled operations of the shift are decontami- 
nated and stored on shelving in the ante-area. 

4. Carts used to bring supplies from the storeroom can- 
not be rolled beyond the demarcation line in the 
ante-area, and carts used in the buffer area cannot be 
rolled outward beyond the demarcation line unless 
cleaned and disinfected before returning. 

5. Generally, supplies required for the scheduled opera- 
tions of the shift are wiped down with an appropriate 
disinfecting agent and brought into the buffer area, 
preferably on one or more movable carts. Supplies 
that are required for back-up or general support of 
operations may be stored on the designated shelving 
in the buffer area, but excessive amounts of supplies 
are to be avoided. 

6. Nonessential objects that shed particles shall not be 
brought into the buffer area, including pencils, card- 
board cartons, paper towels, and cotton items (e.g., 
gauze pads). 

7. Essential paper-related products (e.g., paper syringe 
overwraps, work records contained in a protective 
sleeve) shall be wiped down with an appropriate dis- 
infecting agent prior to being brought into the buffer 
area. 

8. Traffic flow in and out of the buffer area shall be 
minimized. 

9. Personnel preparing to enter the buffer area shall re- 
move all personal outer garments, cosmetics (because 
they shed flakes and particles), and all hand, wrist, 
and other visible jewelry or piercings that can inter- 
fere with the effectiveness of PPE. 

10. Personnel entering the ante-area shall don attire as 
described in Personnel Cleansing and Garbing and Per- 
sonnel Training and Competency Evaluation of Garbing, 
Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection 
Procedures. 

11. Personnel shall then thoroughly wash hands and fore- 
arms to the elbow with soap and water for at least 
30 seconds. An air dryer or disposable nonshedding 
towels are used to dry hands and forearms after 
washing. 

12. Personnel entering the buffer area shall perform anti- 
septic hand cleansing prior to donning sterile gloves 
using a waterless alcohol-based surgical hand scrub 
with persistent activity. 

1 3. Chewing gum, drinks, candy, or food items shall not 
be brought into the buffer area or ante-area. Materi- 
als exposed in patient care and treatment areas shall 
never be introduced into areas where components 
and ingredients for CSPs are present. 

14. At the beginning of each compounding activity ses- 
sion, and whenever liquids are spilled, the surfaces of 
the direct compounding environment are first cleaned 
with USP Purified Water to remove water-soluble resi- 
dues. Immediately thereafter, the same surfaces are 
disinfected with a nonresidue-generating agent using 
a nonlinting wipe. 

15. Primary engineering controls shall be operated con- 
tinuously during compounding activity. When the 
blower is turned off and before other personnel enter 
to perform compounding activities, only one person 
shall enter the buffer area for the purposes of turning 
on the blower (for at least 30 minutes) and disinfect- 
ing the work surfaces. 

16. Traffic in the area of the DCA is minimized and 
controlled. 

1 7. Supplies used in the DCA for the planned procedures 
are accumulated and then decontaminated by wiping 
or spraying the outer surface with sterile 70% IPA or 
removing the outer wrap at the edge of the DCA as 
the item is introduced into the aseptic work area. 

18. All supply items are arranged in the DCA so as to 
reduce clutter and provide maximum efficiency and 
order for the flow of work. 

19. After proper introduction into the DCA of supply 
items required for and limited to the assigned opera- 
tions, they are so arranged that a clear, uninterrupted 
path of HEPA-filtered air will bathe all critical sites at 
all times during the planned procedures. That is, no 
objects may be placed between the first air from 
HEPA filters and an exposed critical site. 

20. All procedures are performed in a manner designed 
to minimize the risk of touch contamination. Gloves 
are disinfected with adequate frequency with an ap- 
proved disinfectant such as sterile 70% IPA. 

21. All rubber stoppers of vials and bottles and the necks 
of ampuls are disinfected by wiping with sterile 70% 
IPA and waiting for at least 10 seconds before they 
are used to prepare CSPs. 

22. After the preparation of every CSP, the contents of 
the container are thoroughly mixed and then in- 
spected for the presence of particulate matter, evi- 
dence of incompatibility, or other defects. 

23. After procedures are completed, used syringes, bot- 
tles, vials, and other supplies are removed, but with a 
minimum of exit and re-entry into the DCA so as to 
minimize the risk of introducing contamination into 
the aseptic workspace. 



20 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

ELEMENTS OF QUALITY CONTROL 

A written description of specific training and performance 
evaluation program for individuals involved in the use of 
aseptic techniques for the preparation of sterile products 
shall be developed for each site. This program equips per- 
sonnel with the appropriate knowledge and trains them in 
the required skills necessary to perform the assigned tasks. 
Each person assigned to the aseptic area in the preparation 
of sterile products shall successfully complete specialized 
training in aseptic techniques and aseptic area practices 
prior to preparing CSPs (see Personnel Training and Evalua- 
tion in Aseptic Manipulation Skills and Personnel Training and 
Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and 
Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures). 

Ingredients and Devices 

Compounding personnel ascertain that ingredients for 
CSPs are of the correct identity and appropriate quality us- 
ing the following information: vendor labels, labeling, certifi- 
cates of analysis, direct chemical analysis, and knowledge of 
compounding facility storage conditions. 

STERILE INGREDIENTS AND DEVICES 

Commercially available sterile drug products, sterile ready- 
to-use containers, and devices are examples of sterile com- 
ponents. A written procedure for unit-by-unit physical in- 
spection preparatory to use is followed to ensure that these 
components are sterile, free from defects, and otherwise 
suitable for their intended use. 

NONSTERILE INGREDIENTS AND DEVICES 

If any nonsterile components, including containers and in- 
gredients, are used to make a CSP, such CSPs must be high 
risk. Nonsterile active ingredients and added substances or 
excipients for CSPs should preferably be official USP or NF 
articles. When nonofficial ingredients are used, they shall be 
accompanied by certificates of analysis from their suppliers 
to aid compounding personnel in judging the identity, qual- 
ity, and purity in relation to the intended use in a particular 
CSP. Physical inspection of a package of ingredients is nec- 
essary in order to detect breaks in the container, looseness 
in the cap or closure, and deviation from the expected ap- 
pearance, aroma, and texture of the contents. 

Bulk or unformulated drug substances and added sub- 
stances or excipients shall be stored in tightly closed con- 
tainers under temperature, humidity, and lighting conditions 
that are either indicated in official monographs or approved 
by suppliers. The date of receipt by the compounding facil- 
ity shall be clearly and indelibly marked on each package of 
ingredient. After receipt by the compounding facility, pack- 
ages of ingredients that lack a supplier's expiration date 
cannot be used after 1 year unless either appropriate inspec- 
tion or testing indicates that the ingredient has retained its 
purity and quality for use in CSPs. 

Careful consideration and evaluation of nonsterile ingredi- 
ent sources is especially warranted when the CSP will be 
administered into the vascular system, central nervous sys- 
tem, or eyes. 

Upon receipt of each lot of the bulk drug substance or 
excipient used for CSPs, the individual compounding the 
preparation performs a visual inspection of the lot for evi- 
dence of deterioration, other types of unacceptable quality, 
and wrong identification. For bulk drug substances or excip- 
ients, visual inspection is performed on a routine basis as 
described in the written protocol. 

Equipment 

It is necessary that equipment, apparatus, and devices 
used to compound a CSP be consistently capable of operat- 
ing properly and within acceptable tolerance limits. Written 
procedures outlining required equipment calibration, annual 
maintenance, monitoring for proper function, and con- 
trolled procedures for use of the equipment and specified 
time frames for these activities are established and followed. 
Routine maintenance and frequencies shall be outlined in 
these SOPs. Results from the equipment calibration, annual 
maintenance reports, and routine maintenance are kept on 
file for the lifetime of the equipment. Personnel are pre- 
pared through an appropriate combination of specific train- 
ing and experience to operate or manipulate any piece of 
equipment, apparatus, or device they may use when prepar- 
ing CSPs. Training includes gaining the ability to determine 
whether any item of equipment is operating properly or is 
malfunctioning. 

VERIFICATION OF AUTOMATED 
COMPOUNDING DEVICES (ACDs) FOR 

PARENTERAL NUTRITION COMPOUNDING 

ACDs for the preparation of parenteral nutrition admix- 
tures are widely used by pharmacists in hospitals and other 
healthcare settings. They are designed to streamline the la- 
bor-intensive processes involved in the compounding of 
these multiple-component formulations by automatically de- 
livering the individual nutritional components in a predeter- 
mined sequence under computerized control. Parenteral nu- 
trition admixtures often contain 20 or more individual 
additives representing as many as 50 or more individual 
components (e.g., 15 to 20 crystalline amino acids, dextrose 
monohydrate, and lipids; 10 to 12 electrolyte salts; 5 to 7 
trace minerals; and 12 vitamins). Thus, ACDs can provide 
improved accuracy and precision of the compounding pro- 
cess over the traditional manual compounding methods. 

Accuracy 

The accuracy of an ACD can be determined in various 
ways to ensure that the correct quantities of nutrients, elec- 
trolytes, or other nutritional components are delivered to 
the final infusion container. Initially, the ACD is tested for its 
volume and weight accuracy. For volume accuracy, a suita- 
ble volume of Sterile Water for Injection, USP, which repre- 
sents a typical additive volume (e.g., 40 mL for small-vol- 
ume range of 1 to 100 mL, 300 mL for large-volume range 
of 100 to 1000 mL), is programmed into the ACD and de- 
livered to the appropriate volumetric container. The com- 
pounding personnel should then consult Volumetric Appara- 
tus (31) for appropriate parameters to assess the volumetric 
performance of the ACD. For gravimetric accuracy, the bal- 
ance used in conjunction with the ACD is tested using vari- 
ous weight sizes that represent the amounts typically used 
to deliver the various additives. Compounding personnel 
should consult Weights and Balances (41) for acceptable tol- 
erances of the weights used. In addition, the same volume 
of Sterile Water for Injection used to assess volumetric accu- 
racy is then weighed on the balance used in conjunction 
with the ACD. For example, if 40 mL of water was used in 
the volumetric assessment, its corresponding weight should 
be about 40 g (assuming the relative density of water is 
1 .0). In addition, during the use of the ACD, certain addi- 
tives, such as potassium chloride (corrected for density dif- 
ferences), can also be tested in the same manner as with an 
in-process test. 

Finally, additional tests of accuracy may be employed that 
determine the content of certain ingredients in the final vol- 
ume of the parenteral nutrition admixture. Generally, phar- 
macy departments do not have the capability to routinely 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 21 

perform chemical analyses such as analyses of dextrose or 
electrolyte concentrations. Consequently, hospital or institu- 
tional laboratories may be called upon to perform these 
quality assurance tests. However, the methods in such labo- 
ratories are often designed for biological, not pharmaceuti- 
cal, systems. Thus, their testing procedures shall be verified 
to meet the USP requirements stated in the individual mon- 
ograph for the component being tested. For example, 
under Dextrose Injection, the following is stated: It contains 
not less than 95.0% and not more than 105.0% of the la- 
beled amount of • 0. The hospital or institutional 
chemistry laboratories must validate their methods to apply 
to this range and correct for their typical measurement of 
anhydrous dextrose versus dextrose monohydrate. Similar 
ranges and issues exist, for example, for injections of cal- 
cium gluconate, magnesium sulfate, and potassium chloride. 
The critical point is the use of USP references and possible 
laboratory procedural differences. 

Precision 

The intermediate precision of the ACD can be determined 
on the basis of the day-to-day variations in performance of 
the accuracy measures. Thus, compounding personnel shall 
keep a daily record of the above-described accuracy assess- 
ments and review the results over time. This review shall 
occur at least at weekly intervals to avoid potentially clini- 
cally significant cumulative errors over time. This is espe- 
cially true for additives with a narrow therapeutic index, 
such as potassium chloride. 

FINISHED PREPARATION RELEASE CHECKS 
AND TESTS 

The following quality metrics shall be performed for all 
CSPs before they are dispensed or administered. 

Inspection of Solution Dosage Forms and 
Review of Compounding Procedures 

All CSPs that are intended to be solutions shall be visually 
examined for the presence of particulate matter and not 
administered or dispensed when such matter is observed. 
The prescription orders, written compounding procedure, 
preparation records, and expended materials used to make 
CSPs at all contamination risk levels are inspected for accu- 
racy of correct identities and amounts of ingredients, aseptic 
mixing and sterilization, packaging, labeling, and expected 
physical appearance before they are administered or 
dispensed. 

PHYSICAL INSPECTION 

Finished CSPs are individually inspected in accordance 
with written procedures after compounding. If not distrib- 
uted promptly, these CSPs are individually inspected just 
prior to leaving the storage area. Those CSPs that are not 
immediately distributed are stored in an appropriate loca- 
tion as described in the written procedures. Immediately af- 
ter compounding, and as a condition of release, each CSP 
unit, where possible, should be inspected against lighted 
white or black background or both for evidence of visible 
particulates or other foreign matter. Prerelease inspection 
also includes container—closure integrity and any other ap- 
parent visual defect. CSPs with observed defects should be 
immediately discarded or marked and segregated from ac- 
ceptable products in a manner that prevents their adminis- 
tration. When CSPs are not distributed promptly after prep- 
aration, a predistribution inspection is conducted to ensure 
that a CSP with defects, such as precipitation, cloudiness, 
and leakage, which may develop between the time of re- 
lease and the time of distribution, is not released. 

Compounding Accuracy Checks 

Written procedures for double-checking compounding ac- 
curacy shall be followed for every CSP during preparation 
and immediately prior to release. The double-check system 
should meet state regulations and include label accuracy 
and accuracy of the addition of all drug products or ingredi- 
ents used to prepare the finished product and their volumes 
or quantities. The used additive containers and, for those 
additives for which the entire container was not expended, 
the syringes used to measure the additive should be quaran- 
tined with the final products until the final product check is 
completed. Compounding personnel shall visually confirm 
that ingredients measured in syringes match the written or- 
der being compounded. Preferably, a person other than the 
compounder can verify that correct volumes of correct in- 
gredients were measured to make each CSP. For example, 
compounding personnel would pull the syringe plunger 
back to the volume measured. 

When practical, the accuracy of measurements is con- 
firmed by weighing a volume of the measured fluid, then 
calculating that volume by dividing the weight by the accu- 
rate value of the density, or specific gravity, of the measured 
fluid. Correct density or specific gravity values programmed 
in ACDs, which measure by weight using the quotient of 
the programmed volume divided by the density or specific 
gravity, shall be confirmed to be accurate before and after 
delivering volumes of the liquids assigned to each channel 
or port. These volume accuracy checks and the following 
additional safety and accuracy checks in this section shall be 
included in the SOP manual of the CSP facility. 

Sterility Testing 

All high-risk level CSPs that are prepared in groups of 
more than 25 identical individual single-dose packages (e.g., 
ampuls, bags, syringes, vials) or in multiple-dose vials 
(MDV5) for administration to multiple patients or that are 
exposed longer than 12 hours at 2° to 8° and longer than 
6 hours at warmer than 8° before they are sterilized shall 
meet the sterility test (see Sterility Tests (71)) before they are 
dispensed or administered. The Membrane Filtration method 
is the method of choice where feasible (e.g., components 
are compatible with the membrane). A method not de- 
scribed in the USP may be used if verification results demon- 
strate that the alternative is at least as effective and reliable 
as the USP Membrane Filtration method or the USP Direct 
Inoculation of the Culture Medium method where the Mem- 
brane Filtration method is not feasible. 

When high-risk level CSPs are dispensed before receiving 
the results of their sterility tests, there shall be a written 
procedure requiring daily observation of the incubating test 
specimens and immediate recall of the dispensed CSPs 
when there is any evidence of microbial growth in the test 
specimens. In addition, the patient and the physician of the 
patient to whom a potentially contaminated CSP was ad- 
ministered are notified of the potential risk. Positive sterility 
test results should prompt a rapid and systematic investiga- 
tion of aseptic technique, environmental control, and other 
sterility assurance controls to identify sources of contamina- 
tion and correct problems in the methods or processes. 

Bacterial Endotoxin (Pyrogen) Testing 

All high-risk level CSPs, except those for inhalation and 
ophthalmic administration, that are prepared in groups of 
more than 25 identical individual single-dose packages (e.g., 
ampuls, bags, syringes, vials) or in MDVs for administration 
to multiple patients or that are exposed longer than 
12 hours at 2° to 8° and longer than 6 hours at warmer 
than 8° before they are sterilized shall be tested to ensure 
that they do not contain excessive bacterial endotoxins (see 



22 (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85) and Pyrogen Test (151 )). In the 
absence of a bacterial endotoxins limit in the official mono- 
graph or other CSP formula source, the CSP shall not ex- 
ceed the amount of USP Endotoxin Units (per hour per kilo- 
gram of body weight or square meters of body surface area) 
specified in Bacterial Endotoxins Test (85) referenced above 
for the appropriate route of administration. 

Identity and Strength Verification of 
Ingredients 

Compounding facilities shall have at least the following 
written procedures for verifying the correct identity and 
quality of CSPs before they are dispensed and administered: 

1. That labels of CSPs bear correct names and amounts 
or concentrations of ingredients, the total volume, 
the BUD, the appropriate route(s) of administration, 
the storage conditions, and other information for safe 
use. 

2. That there are correct identities, purities, and 
amounts of ingredients by comparing the original 
written order with the written compounding record 
for the CSP. 

3. That correct fill volumes in CSPs and correct quanti- 
ties of filled units of the CSPs were obtained. When 
the strength of finished CSPs cannot be confirmed to 
be accurate, based on the above three inspections, 
the CSPs shall be assayed by methods that are spe- 
cific for the active ingredients. 

STORAGE AND BEYOND-USE DATING 

BUDs for compounded preparations are usually assigned 
on the basis of professional experience, which should in- 
clude careful interpretation of appropriate information 
sources for the same or similar formulations (see Stability 
Criteria and Beyond-Use Dating under Pharmaceutical Corn- 
pounding—Nonsterile Preparations (795)). BUDs for CSPs are 
rarely based on preparation-specific chemical assay results, 
which are used with the Arrhenius equation to determine 
expiration dates (see General Notices and Requirements) for 
manufactured products. The majority of CSPs are aqueous 
solutions in which hydrolysis of dissolved ingredients is the 
most common chemical degradation reaction. The extent of 
hydrolysis and other heat-catalyzed degradation reactions at 
any particular time point in the life of a CSP represents the 
thermodynamic sum of exposure temperatures and dura- 
tions. Such lifetime stability exposure is represented in the 
mean kinetic temperature calculation (see Pharmaceutical 
Calculations in Prescription Compounding (11 60)). Drug hy- 
drolysis rates increase exponentially with arithmetic temper- 
ature increase; thus, exposure of a beta-lactam antibiotic so- 
lution for 1 day at controlled room temperature (see General 
Notices and Requirements) will have an equivalent effect on 
the extent of hydrolysis of approximately 3 to 5 days in cold 
temperatures (see General Notices and Requirements). 

Personnel who prepare, dispense, and administer CSPs 
shall store them strictly in accordance with the conditions 
stated on the label of ingredient products and finished 
CSPs. When CSPs are known to have been exposed to tem- 
peratures warmer than the warmest labeled limit or to tem- 
peratures exceeding 40° (see General Notices and Require- 
ments) for more than 4 hours, such CSPs should be 
discarded unless direct assay data or appropriate documen- 
tation confirms their continued stability. 

Determining Beyond-Use Dates 

BUDs and expiration dates are not the same (see General 
Notices and Requirements). Expiration dates for the chemical 
and physical stability of manufactured sterile products are 
determined from results of rigorous analytical and perfor- 
mance testing, and they are specific for a particular formula- 

tion in its container and at stated exposure conditions of 
illumination and temperature. When CSPs deviate from con- 
ditions in the approved labeling of manufactured products 
contained in CSPs, compounding personnel may consult the 
manufacturer of particular products for advice on assigning 
BUDs based on chemical and physical stability parameters. 
BUDs for CSPs that are prepared strictly in accordance with 
manufacturers' product labeling shall be those specified in 
that labeling or from appropriate literature sources or direct 
testing. BUDs for CSPs that lack justification from either ap- 
propriate literature sources or by direct testing evidence 
shall be assigned as described in Stability Criteria and Be- 
yond- Use Dating under Pharmaceutical Compounding—Non- 
sterile Preparations (795). 

In addition, compounding personnel may refer to applica- 
ble publications to obtain relevant stability, compatibility, 
and degradation information regarding the drug or its con- 
geners. When assigning a beyond-use date, compounding 
personnel should consult and apply drug-specific and gen- 
eral stability documentation and literature where available, 
and they should consider the nature of the drug and its 
degradation mechanism, the container in which it is pack- 
aged, the expected storage conditions, and the intended 
duration of therapy (see Expiration Date and Beyond-Use 
Date under Labeling in the General Notices and Require- 
ments). Stability information must be carefully interpreted in 
relation to the actual compounded formulation and condi- 
tions for storage and use. Predictions based on other evi- 
dence, such as publications, charts, and tables, would result 
in theoretical BUDs. Theoretically predicted beyond-use dat- 
ing introduces varying degrees of assumptions and, hence, a 

likelihood of error or at least inaccuracy. The degree of error 
or inaccuracy would be dependent on the extent of differ- 
ences between the CSPs' characteristics (e.g., composition, 
concentration of ingredients, fill volume, container type and 
material) and the characteristics of the products from which 
stability data or information is to be extrapolated. The 
greater the doubt of the accuracy of theoretically predicted 
beyond-use dating, the greater the need to determine dat- 
ing periods experimentally. Theoretically predicted beyond- 
use dating periods should be carefully considered for CSPs 
prepared from nonsterile bulk active ingredients having 
therapeutic activity, especially where these CSPs are ex- 
pected to be compounded routinely. When CSPs will be 
distributed to and administered in residential locations other 
than healthcare facilities, the effect of potentially uncon- 
trolled and unmonitored temperature conditions shall be 
considered when assigning BUDs. It must be ascertained 
that CSPs will not be exposed to warm temperatures (see 
General Notices and Requirements) unless the compounding 
facility has evidence to justify stability of CSPs during such 
exposure. 

It should be recognized that the truly valid evidence of 
stability for predicting beyond-use dating can be obtained 
only through product-specific experimental studies. Semi- 
quantitative procedures such as thin-layer chromatography 
(TLC) may be acceptable for many CSPs. However, quantita- 
tive stability-indicating assays such as high-performance liq- 
uid chromatographic (HPLC) assays would be more appro- 
priate for certain CSPs. Examples include CSPs with a 

narrow therapeutic index, where close monitoring or dose 
titration is required to ensure therapeutic effectiveness and 
to avoid toxicity; where a theoretically established beyond- 
use dating period is supported by only marginal evidence; 
or where a significant margin of safety cannot be verified for 
the proposed beyond-use dating period. In short, because 
beyond-use dating periods established from product-specific 
data acquired from the appropriate instrumental analyses 
are clearly more reliable than those predicted theoretically, 
the former approach is strongly urged to support dating 
periods exceeding 30 days. 

To ensure consistent practices in determining and as- 
signing BUDs, the compounding facility should have written 
policies and procedures governing the determination of the 
BUDs for all compounded products. When attempting to 



USP 35 Physical Tests / (797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 23 

predict a theoretical BUD, a compounded or an admixed 
preparation should be considered as a unique system that 
has physical and chemical properties and stability character- 
istics that differ from its components. For example, antioxi- 
dant, buffering, or antimicrobial properties of a sterile vial 
for injection (SVI) might be lost upon its dilution, with the 
potential of seriously compromising the chemical stability of 
the SVI's active ingredient or the physical or microbiological 
stability of the SVI formulation in general. Thus, the proper- 
ties stabilized in the SVI formulation usually cannot be ex- 
pected to be carried over to the compounded or admixed 
preparation. Preparation-specific, experimentally determined 
stability data evaluation protocols are preferable to pub- 
lished stability information. Compounding personnel should 
consult general information chapter Pharmaceutical Stability 
(1150) for the appropriate stability parameters to be consid- 
ered when initiating or evaluating a preparation-specific sta- 
bility study. 

Compounding personnel who assign BUDs to CSPs when 
lacking direct chemical assay results must critically interpret 
and evaluate the most appropriate available information 
sources to determine a conservative and safe BUD. The SOP 
manual of the compounding facility and each specific CSP 
formula record shall describe the general basis used to as- 
sign the BUD and storage conditions. 

When manufactured MDVs (see Multiple-Dose Container 
under Preservation, Packaging, Storage, and Labeling in the 
General Notices and Requirements) of sterile ingredients are 
used in CSPs, the stoppers of the MDVs are inspected for 
physical integrity and disinfected by wiping with a sterile 
70% IPA swab before each penetration with a sterile with- 
drawal device. When contaminants or abnormal properties 
are suspected or observed in MDVs, such MDVs shall be 
discarded. The BUD after initially entering or opening (e.g., 
needle puncturing) multiple-dose containers is 28 days (see 
Antimicrobial Effectiveness Testing (51)) unless otherwise spec- 
ified by the manufacturer. 

Proprietary Bag and Vial Systems 

The sterility storage and stability beyond-use times for at- 
tached and activated (where activated is defined as allowing 
contact of the previously separate diluent and drug con- 
tents) container pairs of drug products for intravascular ad- 
ministration (e.g., ADD-Vantage®, Mini Bag Plus®) shall be 
applied as indicated by the manufacturer. In other words, 
follow manufacturers' instructions for handling and storing 
ADD-Vantage®, Mini Bag Plus®, Add A Vial®, Add-Ease® 
products, and any others. 

Monitoring Controlled Storage Areas 

To ensure that product potency is retained through the 
manufacturer's labeled expiration date, compounding per- 
sonnel shall monitor the drug storage areas within the com- 
pounding facility. Controlled temperature areas in com- 
pounding facilities include controlled room temperature, 20° 
to 25° with mean kinetic temperature 25°; controlled cold 
temperature, 2° to 8° with mean kinetic temperature 8°; 
cold temperature, 2° to 8°; freezing temperature, —25° and 
—1 0° (see General Notices and Requirements) if needed to 
achieve freezing, and the media-specific temperature range 
for microbial culture media. A controlled temperature area 
shall be monitored at least once daily and the results docu- 
mented on a temperature log. Additionally, compounding 
personnel shall note the storage temperature when placing 
the product into or removing the product from the storage 
unit in order to monitor any temperature aberrations. Suita- 
ble temperature recording devices may include a calibrated 
continuous recording device or a National Institute of Stan- 
dards and Technology (NIST) calibrated thermometer that 
has adequate accuracy and sensitivity for the intended pur- 
pose, and it shall be properly calibrated at suitable intervals. 
If the compounding facility uses a continuous temperature 

recording device, compounding personnel shall verify at 
least once daily that the recording device itself is function- 
ing properly. 

The temperature-sensing mechanisms shall be suitably 
placed in the controlled temperature storage space to reflect 
accurately its true temperature. In addition, the compound- 
ing facility shall adhere to appropriate procedures of all con- 
trolled storage spaces to ensure that such spaces are not 
subject to significantly prolonged temperature fluctuations 
as may occur, for example, by leaving a refrigerator door 
open too long. 

MAINTAINING STERILITY, PURITY, AND 
STABILITY OF DISPENSED AND DISTRIBUTED 

CSPs 

This section summarizes the responsibilities of compound- 
ing facilities for maintaining quality and control of CSPs that 
are dispensed and administered within their parent health- 
care organizations. 

Compounding personnel shall ensure proper storage and 
security of CSPs prepared by or dispensed from the com- 
pounding facility until either their BUDs are reached or they 
are administered to patients. In fulfilling this general respon- 
sibility, the compounding facility is responsible for the 
proper packaging, handling, transport, and storage of CSPs 
prepared by or dispensed from it, including the appropriate 
education, training, and supervision of compounding per- 
sonnel assigned to these functions. The compounding facil- 
ity should assist in the education and training of noncom- 
pounding personnel responsible for carrying out any aspect 
of these functions. 

Establishing, maintaining, and ensuring compliance with 
comprehensive written policies and procedures encompass- 
ing these responsibilities is a further responsibility of the 
compounding facility. Where noncompounding personnel 
are assigned tasks involving any of these responsibilities, the 
policies and procedures encompassing those tasks should be 
developed by compounding supervisors. The quality and 
control activities related to distribution of CSPs are summa- 
rized in the following five subsections. Activities or concerns 
that should be addressed as the compounding facility fulfills 
these responsibilities are as follows. 

Packaging, Handling, and Transport 

Inappropriate processes or techniques involved with pack- 
aging, handling, and transport can adversely affect quality 
and package integrity of CSPs. Although compounding per- 
sonnel routinely perform many of the tasks associated with 
these functions, some tasks, such as transport, handling, 
and placement into storage, may be fulfilled by noncom- 
pounding personnel who are not under the direct adminis- 
trative control of the compounding facility. Under these cir- 
cumstances, appropriate SOPs shall be established by the 
compounding facility with the involvement of other depart- 
ments or services whose personnel are responsible for carry- 
ing out those CSP-related functions for which the com- 
pounding facility has a direct interest. The performance of 
the noncompounding personnel is monitored for compli- 
ance to established policies and procedures. 

The critical requirements that are unique to CSPs and that 
are necessary to ensure CSP quality and packaging integrity 
shall be addressed in SOPs. For example, techniques should 
be specified to prevent the depression of syringe plungers 
or dislodging of syringe tips during handling and transport. 
Additionally, disconnection of system components (e.g., 
where CSPs are dispensed with administration sets attached 
to them) shall be prevented through the BUD of the CSP. 
Foam padding or inserts are particularly useful where CSPs 
are transported by pneumatic tube systems. Regardless of 
the methods used, the compounding facility must evaluate 
their effectiveness and the reliability of the intended protec- 



24 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

tion. Evaluation should be continuous—for example, 
through a surveillance system, including a system of prob- 
lem reporting to the compounding facility. 

Inappropriate transport and handling can adversely affect 
the quality of certain CSPs having unique stability concerns. 
For example, the physical shaking that might occur during 
pneumatic tube transport or undue exposure to heat or 
light must be addressed on a preparation-specific basis. Al- 
ternative transport modes or special packaging measures 
might be needed for the proper assurance of quality of 
these CSPs. The use of tamper-evident closures and seals on 
CSP ports can add an additional measure of security to en- 
sure product integrity regardless of the transport method 
used. 

Chemotoxic and other hazardous CSPs require safeguards 
to maintain the integrity of the CSP and to minimize the 
exposure potential of these products to the environment 
and to personnel who may come in contact with them. 
Transportation by pneumatic tube should be discouraged 
because of potential breakage and contamination. Special 
requirements associated with the packaging, transport, and 
handling of these agents include the prevention of acciden- 
tal exposures or spills and the training of personnel in the 
event of an exposure or spill. Examples of special require- 
ments of these agents also include exposure-reducing strate- 
gies such as the use of Luer lock syringes and connections, 
syringe caps, the capping of container ports, sealed plastic 
bags, impact-resistant containers, and cautionary labeling. 

Use and Storage 

The compounding facility is responsible for ensuring that 
CSPs in the patient-care setting maintain their quality until 
administered. The immediate labeling of the CSP container 
will display prominently and understandably the require- 
ments for proper storage and expiration dating. Delivery 
and patient-care-setting personnel shall be properly trained 
to deliver the CSP to the appropriate storage location. Out- 
dated and unused CSPs shall be returned to the compound- 
ing facility for disposition. 

SOPs must exist to ensure that storage conditions in the 
patient-care setting are suitable for the CSP-specific storage 
requirements. Procedures include daily monitoring and doc- 
umentation of drug storage refrigerators to ensure tempera- 
tures between 2° and 8° and the monthly inspection of all 
drug storage locations by compounding personnel. Inspec- 
tions shall confirm compliance with appropriate storage 
conditions, separation of drugs and food, proper use of 
MDVs, and the avoidance of using single-dose products as 
MDVs. CSPs, as well as all other drug products, shall be 
stored in the patient-care area in such a way as to secure 
them from unauthorized personnel, visitors, and patients. 

Readying for Administration 

Procedures essential for generally ensuring quality, espe- 
cially sterility assurance, when readying a CSP for its subse- 
quent administration include proper hand washing, aseptic 
technique, site care, and change of administration sets. Ad- 
ditional procedures may also be essential for certain CSPs, 
devices, or techniques. Examples where such special proce- 
dures are needed include in-line filtration, the operation of 
automated infusion control devices, and the replenishment 
of CSPs into the reservoirs of implantable or portable infu- 
sion pumps. When CSPs are likely to be exposed to warmer 
than 30° for more than 1 hour during their administration 
to patients, the maintenance of their sterility and stability 
should be confirmed from either relevant and reliable 
sources or direct testing. 

Redispensed CSPs 

The compounding facility shall have the sole authority to 
determine when unopened, returned CSPs may be redis- 
pensed. Returned CSPs may be redispensed only when per- 
sonnel responsible for sterile compounding can ensure that 
such CSPs are sterile, pure, and stable (contain labeled 
strength of ingredients). The following may provide such 
assurance: the CSPs were maintained under continuous re- 
frigeration and protected from light, if required, and no evi- 
dence of tampering or any readying for use outside the 
compounding facility exists. Assignment of new storage 
times and BUDs that exceed the original dates for returned 
CSPs is permitted only when there is supporting evidence 
from sterility testing and quantitative assay of ingredients. 
Thus, initial preparation and thaw times should be docu- 
mented and reliable measures should have been taken to 
prevent and detect tampering. Compliance with all proce- 
dures associated with maintaining product quality is essen- 
tial. The CSPs shall not be redispensed if there is not ade- 
quate assurance that preparation quality and packaging 
integrity (including the connections of devices, where appli- 
cable) were continuously maintained between the time the 
CSPs left and the time they were returned. Additionally, 
CSPs shall not be redispensed if redispensing cannot be sup- 
ported by the originally assigned BUD. 

Education and Training 

The assurance of CSPs' quality and packaging integrity is 
highly dependent on the proper adherence of all personnel 
to the pertinent SOPs. Compounding personnel shall de- 
sign, implement, and maintain a formal education, training, 
and competency assessment program that encompasses all 
the functions and tasks addressed in the foregoing sections 
and all personnel to whom such functions and tasks are 
assigned. This program includes the assessment and docu- 
mentation of procedural breaches, administration mishaps, 
side effects, allergic reactions, and complications associated 
with dosage or administration, such as extravasation. This 
program should be coordinated with the institution's ad- 
verse-events and incident reporting programs. 

Packing and Transporting CSPs 

The following sections describe how to maintain sterility 
and stability of CSPs until they are delivered to patient care 
locations for administration. 

PACKING CSPS FOR TRANSIT 

When CSPs are distributed to locations outside the prem- 
ises in which they are compounded, compounding person- 
nel select packing containers and materials that are ex- 
pected to maintain physical integrity, sterility, and stability 
of CSPs during transit. Packing is selected that simultane- 
ously protects CSPs from damage, leakage, contamination, 
and degradation, and protects personnel who transport 
packed CSPs from harm. The SOP manual of the com- 
pounding facility specifically describes appropriate packing 
containers and insulating and stuffing materials, based on 
information from product specifications, vendors, and expe- 
rience of compounding personnel. Written instructions that 
clearly explain how to safely open containers of packed 
CSPs are provided to patients and other recipients. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 25 

TRANSIT OF CSPS 

Compounding facilities that ship CSPs to locations outside 
their own premises shall select modes of transport that are 
expected to deliver properly packed CSPs in undamaged, 
sterile, and stable condition to recipients. 

Compounding personnel should ascertain that tempera- 
tures of CSPs during transit by the selected mode will not 
exceed the warmest temperature specified on the storage 
temperature range on CSP labels. It is recommended that 
compounding personnel communicate directly with the 
couriers to learn shipping durations and exposure conditions 
that CSPs may encounter. 

Compounding personnel shall include specific handling 
and exposure instructions on the exteriors of containers 
packed with CSPs to be transported and obtain reasonable 
assurance of compliance therewith from transporters. Com- 
pounding personnel shall periodically review the delivery 
performance of couriers to ascertain that CSPs are being 
efficiently and properly transported. 

Storage in Locations Outside Compounding 
Facilities 

Compounding facilities that ship CSPs to patients and 
other recipients outside their own premises shall ascertain or 
provide, whichever is appropriate, the following assurances: 

1. Labels and accessory labeling for CSPs include clearly 
readable BUDs, storage instructions, and disposal in- 
structions for out-of-date units. 

2. Each patient or other recipient is able to store the 
CSPs properly, including the use of a properly func- 
tioning refrigerator and freezer if CSPs are labeled for 
such storage. 

PATIENT OR CAREGIVER TRAINING 

A formal training program is provided as a means to en- 
sure understanding and compliance with the many special 
and complex responsibilities placed on the patient or 
caregiver for the storage, handling, and administration of 
CSPs. The instructional objectives for the training program 
include all home care responsibilities expected of the patient 
or caregiver and is specified in terms of patient or caregiver 
competencies. 

Upon the conclusion of the training program, the patient 
or caregiver should, correctly and consistently, be able to do 
the following: 

1. Describe the therapy involved, including the disease 
or condition for which the CSPs are prescribed, goals 
of therapy, expected therapeutic outcome, and po- 
tential side effects of the CSPs. 

2. Inspect all drug products, CSPs, devices, equipment, 
and supplies on receipt to ensure that proper temper- 
atures were maintained during transport and that 
goods received show no evidence of deterioration or 
defects. 

3. Handle, store, and monitor all drug products, CSPs, 
and related supplies and equipment in the home, in- 
cluding all special requirements related to same. 

4. Visually inspect all drug products, CSPs, devices, and 
other items the patient or caregiver is required to use 
immediately prior to administration in a manner to 
ensure that all items are acceptable for use. For ex- 
ample, CSPs must be free from leakage, container 
cracks, particulates, precipitate, haziness, discolora- 
tion, or other deviations from the normal expected 
appearance, and the immediate packages of sterile 
devices must be completely sealed, with no evidence 
of loss of package integrity. 

5. Check labels immediately prior to administration to 
ensure the right drug, dose, patient, and time of 
administration. 

6. Clean the in-home preparation area, scrub hands, use 
proper aseptic technique, and manipulate all contain- 
ers, equipment, apparatus, devices, and supplies used 
in conjunction with administration. 

7. Employ all techniques and precautions associated 
with CSP administration; for example, preparing sup- 
plies and equipment, handling of devices, priming 
the tubing, and discontinuing an infusion. 

8. Care for catheters, change dressings, and maintain 
site patency as indicated. 

9. Monitor for and detect occurrences of therapeutic 
complications such as infection, phlebitis, electrolyte 
imbalance, and catheter misplacement. 

10. Respond immediately to emergency or critical situa- 
tions such as catheter breakage or displacement, tub- 
ing disconnection, clot formation, flow blockage, and 
equipment malfunction. 

11. Know when to seek and how to obtain professional 
emergency services or professional advice. 

12. Handle, contain, and dispose of wastes, such as need- 
les, syringes, devices, biohazardous spills or residuals, 
and infectious substances. 

Training programs include a hands-on demonstration and 
practice with actual items that the patient or caregiver is 
expected to use, such as CSP containers, devices, and 
equipment. The patient or caregiver practices aseptic and 
injection technique under the direct observation of a health 
professional. 

The compounding facility, in conjunction with nursing or 
medical personnel, is responsible for ensuring initially and 
on an ongoing basis that the patient or caregiver under- 
stands, has mastered, and is capable of and willing to com- 
ply with all of these home care responsibilities. This is 
achieved through a formal, written assessment program. All 
specified competencies in the patient or caregiver training 
program are formally assessed. The patient or caregiver is 

expected to demonstrate to appropriate healthcare person- 
nel mastery of assigned activities before being allowed to 
administer CSPs unsupervised by a health professional. 

Printed material such as checklists or instructions provided 
during training may serve as continuing post-training rein- 
forcement of learning or as reminders of specific patient or 
caregiver responsibilities. Post-training verbal counseling can 
also be used periodically, as appropriate, to reinforce train- 
ing and to ensure continuing correct and complete fulfill- 
ment of responsibilities. 

PATIENT MONITORING AND ADVERSE 
EVENTS REPORTING 

Compounding facilities shall clinically monitor patients 
treated with CSPs according to the regulations and guide- 
lines of their respective state healthcare practitioner licen- 
sure boards or of accepted standards of practice. Com- 
pounding facilities shall provide patients and other recipients 
of CSPs with a way to address their questions and report 
any concerns that they may have with CSPs and their ad- 
ministration devices. 

The SOP manuals of compounding facilities shall describe 
specific instructions for receiving, acknowledging, and dat- 
ing receipts, and for recording, or filing, and evaluating re- 
ports of adverse events and of the quality of preparation 
claimed to be associated with CSPs. Reports of adverse 
events with CSPs shall be reviewed promptly and thor- 
oughly by compounding supervisors to correct and prevent 
future occurrences. Compounding personnel are en- 
couraged to participate in adverse event reporting and 
product defects programs of the FDA and USP. 



26 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

QUALITY ASSURANCE (QA) PROGRAM 

A provider of CSPs shall have in place a formal QA pro- 
gram intended to provide a mechanism for monitoring, 
evaluating, correcting, and improving the activities and 
processes described in this chapter. Emphasis in the QA pro- 
gram is placed on maintaining and improving the quality of 
systems and the provision of patient care. In addition, the 
QA program ensures that any plan aimed at correcting iden- 
tified problems also includes appropriate follow-up to make 
certain that effective corrective actions were 13 

Characteristics of a QA program include the following: 
1. Formalization in writing; 
2. Consideration of all aspects of the preparations and 

dispensing of products as described in this chapter, 
including environmental testing and verification 
results; 

3. Description of specific monitoring and evaluation 
activities; 

4. Specification of how results are to be reported and 
evaluated; 

5. Identification of appropriate follow-up mechanisms 
when action limits or thresholds are exceeded; and 

6. Delineation of the individuals responsible for each as- 
pect of the QA program. 

In developing a specific plan, focus is on establishing ob- 
jective, measurable indicators for monitoring activities and 
processes that are deemed high risk, high volume, or prob- 
lem prone. In general, the selection of indicators and the 
effectiveness of the overall QA program is reassessed on an 
annual basis. 

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 

ACD automated compounding device 

ACPH air changes per hour 
ALARA as low as reasonably achievable 

'3 The use of additional resources, such as the Accreditation Manual for Home 
Care from the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organiza- 
tions, may prove helpful in the development of a QA plan. 

PPE 

psi 

American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Con- 
ditioning Engineers 

biological indicator 
biological safety cabinet 
beyond-use date 

compounding aseptic containment isolator 

compounding aseptic isolator 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

Controlled Environment Testing Association 

colony-forming unit(s) 

compounded sterile preparation 
closed-system vial-transfer device 

direct compounding area 

endotoxin challenge vial 

Endotoxin Unit 
Food and Drug Administration 
high efficiency particulate air 

Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Com- 
mittee 

heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 
isopropyl alcohol 

International Organization for Standardization 
laminar airflow workbench 
multiple-dose vials 

Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report 

National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health 

National Institute of Standards and Technology 
primary engineering control 
positron emission tomography 
personnel protective equipment 
pounds per square inch 

quality assurance 

standard operating procedure 
sterile vial for injection 
trypticase soy agar 

United States Pharmacopeia 

ASH RAE 

BI 

BSC 

BUD 

CACI 

CAl 

CDC 

CETA 

cfu 

CSP 

CSTD 

DCA 

ECV 

EU 

FDA 

HEPA 

HICPAC 

HVAC 

IPA 

ISO 

LAFW 

MDVs 

MMWR 

NIOSH 

NIST 

QA 

SOP 

SVI 

ISA 
USP 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 27 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in USP Chapter (797) 

NOTE—This tabular appendix selectively abstracts and condenses the full text of (797) for rapid reference only. Compounding personnel are responsible 
for reading, understanding and complying with the full text and all official USP terminology, content, and conditions therein. 

INTRODUCTION 

j Chapter purpose is to prevent harm and death to patients treated with CSPs. 

t Chapter pertains to preparation, storage, and transportation, but not administration, of CSPs. 

t Personnel and facilities to which (797) applies; therefore, for whom and which it may be enforced by regulatory and accreditation authorities. 

t Types of preparations designated to be CSP5 according to their physical forms, and their sites and routes of administration to patients. 

1- Compounding personnel must be meticulously conscientious to preclude contact contamination of CSPs both within and outside ISO Class 5 areas. 

ORGANIZATION 

t All compounding personnel shall be responsible for understanding fundamental practices and precautions within USP (797), for developing and 
implementing appropriate procedures, and for continually evaluating these procedures and the quality of final CSP5 to prevent harm. 

DEFINITIONS 

1- Twenty-eight terms are defined and integral to complying with USP (797). 

RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPOUNDING PERSONNEL 

t Practices and quality assurances required to prepare, store, and transport CSPs that are sterile, and acceptably accurate, pure, and stable. 

CSP MICROBIAL CONTAMINATION RISK LEVELS 

t Proper training and evaluation of personnel, proper cleansing and garbing of personnel, proper cleaning and disinfecting of compounding work 
environments, and proper maintenance and monitoring of controlled environmental locations (all of which are detailed in their respective sections). 

Low-Risk Level CSPs 

t Aseptic manipulations within an ISO Class 5 environment using three or fewer sterile products and entries into any container. 

tIn absence of passing sterility test, store not more than 48 hours at controlled room temperature, 14 days at cold temperature, and 45 days in solid 
frozen state at —25° to —10° or colder. 

t Media-fill test at least annually by compounding personnel. 

Low-Risk Level CSPs with 12-Hour or Less BUD 

t Fully comply with all four specific criteria. 

1 
Sinks should not be located adjacent to the ISO Class 5 primary engineering control. 

1 
Sinks should be separated from the immediate area of the ISO Class 5 primary engineering control device. 

Medium-Risk Level CSPs 

t Aseptic manipulations within an ISO Class 5 environment using prolonged and complex mixing and transfer, more than three sterile products and 
entries into any container, and pooling ingredients from multiple sterile products to prepare multiple CSP5. 

tIn absence of passing sterility test, store not more than 30 hours at controlled room temperature, 9 days at cold temperature, and 45 days in solid 
frozen state at —25° to —10° or colder. 

tMedia-fiIl test at least annually by compounding personnel. 

High-Risk Level CSP5 

t Confirmed presence of nonsterile ingredients and devices, or confirmed or suspected exposure of sterile ingredients for more than one hour to air 
quality inferior to ISO Class 5 before final sterilization. 

t Sterilization method verified to achieve sterility for the quantity and type of containers. 

t Meet allowable limits for bacterial endotoxins. 

t Maintain acceptable strength and purity of ingredients and integrity of containers after sterilization. 

tIn absence of passing sterility test, store not more than 24 hours at controlled room temperature, 3 days at cold temperature, and 45 days in solid 
frozen state at —25° to —10° or colder. 

t Media-fill test at least semiannually by compounding personnel. 

PERSONNEL TRAINING AND EVALUATION IN ASEPTIC MANIPULATIONS SKILLS 

t Pass didactic, practical skill assessment and media-fill testing initially, followed by an annual assessment for a low- and medium-risk level compound- 
ing and semi-annual assessment for high-risk level compounding. 

t Compounding personnel who fail written tests, or whose media-fill test vials result in gross microbial colonization, shall be immediately reinstructed 
and re-evaluated by expert compounding personnel to ensure correction of all aseptic practice deficiencies. 

IMMEDIATE-USE CSP5 

t Fully comply with all six specified criteria. 



28 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (Continued) 

SINGLE-DOSE AND MULTIPLE-DOSE CONTAINERS 

1- Beyond-use date 28 days, unless specified otherwise by the manufacturer, for closure sealed multiple-dose containers after initial opening or entry. 

t Beyond-use time of 6 hours, unless specified otherwise by the manufacturer, for closure sealed single-dose containers in ISO Class 5 or cleaner air 
after initial opening or entry. 

1- Beyond-use time of 1 hour for closure sealed single-dose containers after being opened or entered in worse than ISO Class 5 air. 

t Storage of opened single-dose ampuls is not permitted. 

HAZARDOUS DRUGS AS CSPs 

1- Appropriate personnel protective equipment. 

t Appropriate primary engineering controls (BSC5 and CACI5) are used for concurrent personnel protection and exposure of critical sites. 

t Hazardous drugs shall be stored separately from other inventory in a manner to prevent contamination and personnel exposure. 

tAt least 0.01 inch water column negative pressure and 12 air changes per hour in non-cleanrooms in which CACI5 are located. 

1- Hazardous drugs shall be handled with caution at all times using appropriate chemotherapy gloves during receiving, distribution, stocking, invento- 
rying, preparing for administration, and disposal. 

1- Hazardous drugs shall be prepared in an ISO Class 5 environment with protective engineering controls in place, and following aseptic practices 
specified for the appropriate contamination risk levels. 

t Access to drug preparation areas shall be limited to authorized personnel. 

t A pressure indicator shall be installed that can readily monitor room pressurization, which is documented daily. 

1- Annual documentation of full training of personnel regarding storage, handling, and disposal of hazardous drugs. 

t When used, a CSTD shall be used in an ISO Class 5 primary engineering control device. 

t At least 0.01 inch water column negative pressure is required for compounding of hazardous drugs. 

Negative-pressure buffer area is not required for low-volume compounding operations when CSTD is used in BSC or CACI. 

t Compounding personnel of reproductive capability shall confirm in writing that they understand the risks of handling hazardous drugs. 

t Disposal of all hazardous drug wastes shall comply with all applicable federal and state regulations. 

1 
Total external exhaust of primary engineering controls. 

Assay of surface wipe samples every 6 months. 

RADIOPHARMACEUTICALS AS CSPs 

t Positron Emission Tomography is according to USP chapter 

t Appropriate primary engineering controls and radioactivity containment and shielding. 

t Radiopharmaceuticals compounded from sterile components, in closed sterile containers, with volume of 100 mL or less for a single-dose injection or 
not more than 30 mL taken from a multiple-dose container shall be designated as and conform to the standards for low-risk level CSP5. 

t Radiopharmaceutical vials, designed for multi-use, compounded with technetium-99m, exposed to ISO Class 5 environment and punctured by 
needles with no direct contact contamination may be used up to the time indicated by manufacturers' recommendations. 

t Location of primary engineering controls permitted in ISO Class 8 controlled environment. 

t Technetium-99m/Molybdenum-99 generators used according to manufacturer, state, and federal requirements. 

t Radiopharmaceuticals prepared as low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD shall be prepared in a segregated compounding area. 

t Materials and garb exposed in patient-care and treatment area shall not cross a line of demarcation into the segregated compounding area. 

t Technetium-99m/Molybdenum-99 generators must be eluted in ISO Class 8 conditions. 

t Segregated compounding area will be designated with a line of demarcation. 

1 
Storage and transport of properly shielded vials of radiopharmaceutical CSPs may occur in a limited access ambient environment without a specific 

ISO class designation. 

ALLERGEN EXTRACTS AS CSPs 

t Allergen extracts as CSP5 are not subject to the personnel, environmental, and storage requirements for all CSP Microbial Contamination Risk Levels 
when certain criteria are met. 

VERIFICATION OF COMPOUNDING ACCURACY AND STERILITY 

t Review labels and document correct measurements, aseptic manipulations, and sterilization procedures to confirm correct identity, purity, and 
strength of ingredients in, and sterility of, CSPs. 

Assay finished CSPs to confirm correct identity and, or, strength of ingredients. 

1 Sterility test finished CSP5. 

Sterilization Methods 

t Verify that methods achieve sterility while maintaining appropriate strength, purity, quality, and packaging integrity. 
Prove effectiveness by USP chapter (71), equivalent, or superior sterility testing. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 29 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (Continued) 

Sterilization of High-Risk Level CSPs by Filtration 

t Nominal 0.2-lim pore size sterile membranes that are chemically and physically compatible with the CSP. 

t Complete rapidly without filter replacement. 

t Subject filter to manufacturer's recommended integrity test (e.g., bubble point test) after filtering CSP5. 

Sterilization of High-Risk Level CSPs by Steam 

1- Test to verify the mass of containers to be sterilized will be sterile after the selected exposure duration in the particular autoclave. 

t Ensure live steam contacts all ingredients and surfaces to be sterilized. 

t Pass solutions through a 1 .2-FLm or smaller nominal pore size filter into final containers to remove particulates before sterilization. 

t Heated filtered air shall be evenly distributed throughout the chamber by a blower device. 

1- Dry heat shall only be used for those materials that cannot be sterilized by steam, when the moisture would either damage or be impermeable to 
the materials. 

t Sufficient space shall be left between materials to allow for good circulation of the hot air. 

1- The description of dry heat sterilization conditions and duration for specific CSPs shall be included in written documentation in the compounding 
facility. The effectiveness of dry heat sterilization shall be verified using appropriate biological indicators and other confirmation. 
The oven should be equipped with a system for controlling temperature and exposure period. 

Depyrogenation by Dry Heat 

t Dry heat depyrogenation shall be used to render glassware or containers, such as vials free from pyrogens as well as viable microbes. 

t The description of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle and duration for specific load items shall be included in written documentation in the 
compounding facility. 

t The effectiveness of the dry heat depyrogenation cycle shall be verified using endotoxin challenge vials (ECVs). 

1 
The bacterial endotoxin test should be performed on the ECV5 to verify the cycle is capable of achieving a 3 log reduction in endotoxin. 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AND CONTROL 

Exposure of Critical Sites 

t ISO Class 5 or better air. 

t Preclude direct contact (e.g., touch and secretions) contamination. 
ISO Class 5 Air Sources, Buffer Areas, and Ante-Areas 

t A buffer area is an area that provides at least ISO Class 7 air quality. 

t New representations of facility layouts. 

t Each compounding facility shall ensure that each source of ISO Class 5 environment for exposure of critical sites and sterilization by filtration is 

properly located, operated, maintained, monitored, and verified. 

t Devices (e.g., computers and printers) and objects (e.g., carts and cabinets) can be placed in buffer areas and shall be verified by testing or 
monitoring. 

Viable and Nonviable Environmental Sampling (ES) Testing 

t Environmental sampling shall occur as part a comprehensive quality management program and shall occur minimally when several conditions exist. 

The ES program should provide information to staff and leadership to demonstrate that the engineering controls are maintaining an environment 
within the compounding area that consistently maintains acceptably low viable and nonviable particle levels. 

Environmental Nonviable Particle Testing Program 

t Certification and testing of primary (LAFWs, BSC5, CAI5 and CACI5) and secondary engineering controls (buffer and ante areas) shall be performed 
by a qualified individual no less than every six months and whenever the device or room is relocated, altered, or major service to the facility is 

performed. Certification procedures such as those outlined in the CETA Certification Guide for Sterile Compounding Facilities (CAG-003-2006) shall 
be used. 

Total Particle Counts 

t Certification that each ISO classified area (e.g., ISO Class 5, 7 and 8) is within established guidelines shall be performed no less than every 6 months 
and whenever the LAFW, BSC, CAl, or CACI is relocated or the physical structure of the buffer room or ante-area has been altered. 

t Testing shall be performed by qualified operators using current, state-of-the-art electronic equipment with results meeting ISO Class 5, 7, or 8 

depending on the requirements of the area. 

f All certification records shall be maintained and reviewed by supervising personnel or other designated employee to ensure that the controlled 
environments comply with the proper air cleanliness, room pressures, and air changes per hour. 

Pressure Differential Monitoring 
f A pressure gauge or velocity meter shall be installed to monitor the pressure differential or airflow between the buffer area and ante-area, and the 

ante-area and the general environment outside the compounding area. 

t The results shall be reviewed and documented on a log at least every work shift (minimum frequency shall be at least daily) or by a continuous 
recording device. 

t The pressure between the ISO Class 7 and general pharmacy area shall not be less than 5 Pa (0.02 inch water column (w.c.)). 

tIn facilities where low- and medium-risk level CSPs are prepared, differential airflow shall maintain a minimum velocity of 0.2 meter/second (40 fpm) 
between buffer area and ante-area. 

Environmental Viable Airborne Particle Testing Program—Sampling Plan 

t An appropriate environmental sampling plan shall be developed for airborne viable particles based on a risk assessment of compounding activities 
performed. 

t Selected sampling sites shall include locations within each ISO Class 5 environment and in the ISO Class 7 and 8 areas, and the segregated 
compounding areas at greatest risk of contamination (e.g., work areas near the ISO Class 5 environment, counters near doors, pass-through boxes). 



30 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (797) (continued) 

t The plan shall include sample location, method of collection, frequency of sampling, volume of air sampled, and time of day as related to activity in 
the compounding area and action levels. 

It is recommended that compounding personnel refer to USP Chapter Microbiological Evaluation of clean Rooms and Other controlled Environments 
(1116) and the CDC Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Healthcare Facilities-2003 for more information. 

Growth Media 

t A general microbiological growth medium such as Soybean—Casein Digest Medium (also known as trypticase soy broth (TSB) or agar (TSA)) shall be 
used to support the growth of bacteria. 

t Malt extract agar (MEA) or some other media that supports the growth of fungi shall be used in high-risk level compounding environments. 

t Media used for surface sampling shall be supplemented with additives to neutralize the effects of disinfecting agents (e.g., TSA with lecithin and 
polysorbate 80). 

Viable Air Sampling 

t Evaluation of airborne microorganisms using volumetric collection methods in the controlled air environments shall be performed by properly 
trained individuals for all compounding risk levels. 

t Impaction shall be the preferred method of volumetric air sampling. 

t For low-, medium-, and high-risk level compounding, air sampling shall be performed at locations that are prone to contamination during 
compounding activities and during other activities like staging, labeling, gowning, and cleaning. 

t Locations shall include zones of air backwash turbulence within laminar airflow workbench and other areas where air backwash turbulence may 
enter the compounding area. 

t For low-risk level CSPs with 12-hour or less BUD, air sampling shall be performed at locations inside the ISO Class 5 environment and other areas 
that are in close proximity to the ISO class 5 environment, during the certification of the primary engineering control. 
Consideration should be given to the overall effect the chosen sampling method will have on the unidirectional airflow within a compounding 

environment. 
Air Sampling Devices 

t The instructions in the manufacturer's user manual for verification and use of electric air samplers that actively collect volumes of air for evaluation 
shall be followed. 

t A sufficient volume of air (400—1000 liters) shall be tested at each location in order to maximize sensitivity. 
It is recommended that compounding personnel also refer to USP Chapter (1116), which can provide more information on the use of volumetric air 

samplers and volume of air that should be sampled to detect environmental bioburden excursions. 

Air Sampling Frequency and Process 

t Air sampling shall be performed at least semiannually (i.e. every 6 months), as part of the re-certification of facilities and equipment for area where 
primary engineering controls are located. 

t A sufficient volume of air shall be sampled and the manufacturer's guidelines for use of the electronic air sampling equipment followed. 
Any facility construction or equipment servicing may require the need to perform air sampling during these events. 

Incubation Period 

t The microbial growth media plates used to collect environmental sampling are recovered, covers secured (e.g., taped), inverted, and incubated at a 

temperature and for a time period conducive to multiplication of microorganisms. 

t The number of discrete colonies of microorganisms shall be counted and reported as colony-forming units (cfu) and documented on an environ- 
mental monitoring form. Counts from air monitoring need to be transformed into cfu/cubic meter of air and evaluated for adverse trends. 

TSA should be incubated at 35° ± 2 ° for 2—3 days. 

MEA or other suitable fungal media should be incubated at 28° ± 2 ° for 5—7 days. 

Action Levels, Documentation and Data Evaluation 

t Sampling data shall be collected and reviewed on a periodic basis as a means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding environment. 

t Competent microbiology personnel shall be consulted if an environmental sampling consistently shows elevated levels of microbial growth. 

t An investigation into the source of the environmental contamination shall be conducted. 
Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of personnel work practices, cleaning 

procedures, operational procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic compounding location. 

1 
Table titled, Recommended Action Levels for Microbial Contamination should only be used as a guideline 

Facility Design and Environmental Controls 

t Compounding facilities are physically designed and environmentally controlled to minimize airborne contamination from contacting critical sites. 

t Compounding facilities shall provide a comfortable and well-lighted working environment, which typically includes a temperature of 20° or cooler to 
maintain comfortable conditions for compounding personnel when attired in the required aseptic compounding garb. 

t Primary engineering controls provide unidirectional (i.e., laminar) HEPA air at a velocity sufficient to prevent airborne particles from contacting 
critical sites. 

fIn situ air pattern analysis via smoke studies shall be conducted at the critical area to demonstrate unidirectional airflow and sweeping action over 
and away from the product under dynamic conditions. 

f Policies and procedures for maintaining and working within the primary engineering control area shall be written and followed. The policies and 
procedures will be determined by the scope and risk levels of the aseptic compounding activities used during the preparation of the CSP5. 

f The principles of HEPA-filtered unidirectional airflow in the work environment shall be understood and practiced in the compounding process in 
order to achieve the desired environmental conditions. 

f Clean rooms for nonhazardous and nonradioactive CSP5 are supplied with HEPA that enters from ceilings with return vents low on walls, and that 
provides not less than 30 air changes per hour. 

f Buffer areas maintain 0.02- to 0.05-inch water column positive pressure, and do not contain sinks or drains. 

f Air velocity from buffer rooms or zones to ante-areas is at least 40 feet/minute. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 31 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (continued) 

t The primary engineering controls shall be placed within a buffer area in such a manner as to avoid conditions that could adversely affect their 
operation. 

t The primary engineering controls shall be placed out of the traffic flow and in a manner to avoid disruption from the HVAC system and room cross- 
drafts. 

t HEPA-filtered supply air shall be introduced at the ceiling. 

t All HEPA filters shall be efficiency tested using the most penetrating particle size and shall be leak tested at the factory and then leak tested again in 

situ after installation. 

t Activities and tasks carried out within the buffer area shall be limited to only those necessary when working within a controlled environment. 

t Only the furniture, equipment, supplies, and other material required for the compounding activities to be performed shall be brought into the 
room. 

t Surfaces and essential furniture in buffer rooms or zones and clean rooms shall be nonporous, smooth, nonshedding, impermeable, cleanable, and 
resistant to disinfectants. 

1- The surfaces of ceilings, walls, floors, fixtures, shelving, counters, and cabinets in the buffer area shall be smooth, impervious, free from cracks and 
crevices, and nonshedding, thereby promoting cleanability, and minimizing spaces in which microorganisms and other contaminants may accumu- 
late. 

t The surfaces shall be resistant to damage by disinfectant agents. 

t Junctures of ceilings to walls shall be coved or caulked to avoid cracks and crevices where dirt can accumulate. 

t Ceiling tiles shall be caulked around each perimeter to seal them to the support frame. 

1- The exterior lens surface of ceiling lighting fixtures shall be smooth, mounted flush, and sealed. 

t Any other penetrations through the ceiling or walls shall be sealed. 

t The buffer area shall not contain sources of water (sinks) or floor drains. Work surfaces shall be constructed of smooth, impervious materials, such as 

stainless steel or molded plastic, so that they are easily cleaned and disinfected. 

t Carts shall be of stainless steel wire, nonporous plastic, or sheet metal construction with good quality, cleanable casters to promote mobility. 

t Storage shelving, counters, and cabinets shall be smooth, impervious, free from cracks and crevices, nonshedding, cleanable, and disinfectable. 

t Their number, design, and manner of installation the itmes above shall promote effective cleaning and disinfection. 

J 
If ceilings consist of inlaid panels, the panels should be impregnated with a polymer to render them impervious and hydrophobic. 
Dust-collecting overhangs, such as ceiling utility pipes, or ledges, such as windowsills, should be avoided. 

J 
Air returns should be mounted low on the wall creating a general top-down dilution of room air with HEPA-filtered make-up air. 

Placement of Primary Engineering Controls Within ISO Class 7 Buffer Areas 

1- Primary engineering controls for nonhazardous and nonradioactive CSPs are located in buffer areas, except for CAIs that are proven to maintain ISO 
Class 5 air when particle counts are sampled 6 to 12 inches upstream of critical site exposure areas during performance of normal inward and 
outward transfer of materials, and compounding manipulations when such CAIs are located in air quality worse than ISO Class 7. 

t Presterilization procedures for high-risk level CSP5, such as weighing and mixing, shall be completed in no worse than an ISO Class 8 environment. 

t Primary engineering controls shall be located out of traffic patterns and away from room air currents that could disrupt the intended airflow 
patterns. 

t When isolators are used for sterile compounding, the recovery time to achieve ISO Class 5 air quality shall be documented and internal procedures 
developed to ensure that adequate recovery time is allowed after material transfer before and during compounding operations. 

t When compounding activities require the manipulation of a patient's blood-derived or other biological material (e.g., radiolabeling a patient's or a 

donor's white blood cells), the manipulations shall be clearly separated from routine material-handling procedures and equipment used in CSP 

preparation activities, and they shall be controlled by specific standard operating procedures in order to avoid any cross-contamination. 

t Food, drinks, and items exposed in patient care areas, and unpacking of bulk supplies and personnel cleansing and garbing are prohibited from 
buffer areas or rooms. 

t Demarcation designation between buffer areas or rooms and ante-areas. 

t Antiseptic hand cleansing and sterile gloves in buffer areas or rooms. 

1 
Packaged compounding supplies and components, such as needles, syringes, tubing sets, and small- and large-volume parenterals, should be 

uncartoned and wiped down with a disinfectant that does not leave a residue (e.g., sterile 70% IPA) when possible in an ante-area, of ISO Class 8 air 
quality, before being passed into the buffer areas. 

Cleaning and Disinfecting the Sterile Compounding Areas 

t Trained personnel write detailed procedures including cleansers, disinfectants, and non-shedding wipe and mop materials. 

f Cleaning and disinfecting surfaces in the LAFWs, BSC5, CAIs, and CACI5 shall be cleaned and disinfected frequently, including at the beginning of 
each work shift, before each batch preparation is started, every 30 minutes during continuous compounding periods of individual CSPs, when there 
are spills, and when surface contamination is known or suspected from procedural breaches. 

t Trained compounding personnel are responsible for developing, implementing, and practicing the procedures for cleaning and disinfecting the DCA5 
written in the SOPs. 

f Cleaning and disinfecting shall occur before compounding is performed. Items shall be removed from all areas to be cleaned, and surfaces shall be 
cleaned by removing loose material and residue from spills, e.g., water-soluble solid residues are removed with Sterile Water (for Injection or 
Irrigation) and low-shedding wipes. This shall be followed by wiping with a residue-free disinfecting agent, such as sterile 70% IPA, which is allowed 
to dry before compounding begins. 

t Work surfaces in ISO Class 7 and 8 areas and segregated compounding areas are cleaned at least daily. 

f Dust and debris shall be removed when necessary from storage sites for compounding ingredients and supplies, using a method that does not 
degrade the ISO Class 7 or 8 air quality. 

t Floors in ISO Class 7 and 8 areas are cleaned daily when no compounding occurs. 

f IPA (70% isopropyl alcohol) remains on surfaces to be disinfected for at least 30 seconds before such surfaces are used to prepare CSPs. 



32 '(797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (continued) 

t Emptied shelving, walls, and ceilings in ante-areas are cleaned and disinfected at least monthly. 

t Mopping shall be performed by trained personnel using approved agents and procedures described in the written SOPs. 

t Cleaning and disinfecting agents, their schedules of use and methods of application shall be in accordance with written SOPs and followed by 
custodial and/or compounding personnel. 

t All cleaning materials, such as wipers, sponges, and mops, shall be nonshedding, preferably composed of synthetic micro fibers, and dedicated to 
use in the buffer area, or ante-area, and segregated compounding areas and shall not be removed from these areas except for disposal. 

t If cleaning materials are reused (e.g., mops), procedures shall be developed (based on manufacturer recommendations) that ensure that the 
effectiveness of the cleaning device is maintained and repeated use does not add to the bioburden of the area being cleaned. 

t Supplies and equipment removed from shipping cartons shall be wiped with a suitable disinfecting agent (e.g., sterile 70% IPA) delivered from a 

spray bottle or other suitable delivery method. 

t After the disinfectant is sprayed or wiped on a surface to be disinfected, the disinfectant shall be allowed to dry, and during this time the item shall 
not be used for compounding purposes. 

t Sterile 70% IPA wetted gauze pads or other particle-generating material shall not be used to disinfect the sterile entry points of packages and 
devices. 

Personnel Cleansing and Garbing 

t Personnel shall also be thoroughly competent and highly motivated to perform flawless aseptic manipulations with ingredients, devices, and 
components of CSPs. 

t Personnel with rashes, sunburn, weeping sores, conjunctivitis, active respiratory infection, and cosmetics are prohibited from preparing CSPs. 

t Compounding personnel shall remove personal outer garments; cosmetics; artificial nails; hand, wrist, and body jewelry that can interfere with the 
fit of gowns and gloves; and visible body piercing above the neck. 

t Order of compounding garb and cleansing in ante-area: shoes or shoe covers, head and facial hair covers, face mask, fingernail cleansing, hand and 
forearm washing and drying; non-shedding gown. 

t Order of cleansing and gloving in buffer room or area: hand cleansing with a persistently active alcohol-based product with persistent activity; allow 
hands to dry; don sterile gloves. 

t Routinely disinfect gloves with sterile 70% IPA after contacting nonsterile objects. 

t Inspect gloves for holes and replace when breaches are detected. 

t Personnel repeat proper procedures after they are exposed to direct contact contamination or worse than ISO Class 8 air. 

t These requirements are exempted only for immediate-use CSPs and CAIs for which manufacturers provide written documentation based on 
validated testing that such personnel practices are not required to maintain sterility in CSPs. 

Personnel Training and Competency Evaluation of Garbing, Aseptic Work Practices and Cleaning/Disinfection Procedures 

t Personnel who prepare CSP5 shall be trained conscientiously and skillfully by expert personnel, multi-media instructional sources, and professional 
publications in the theoretical principles and practical skills of garbing procedures, aseptic work practices, achieving and maintaining ISO Class 5 

environmental conditions, and cleaning and disinfection procedures. 

t This training shall be completed and documented before any compounding personnel begin to prepare CSP5. 

t Compounding personnel shall complete didactic training, pass written competence assessments, undergo skill assessment using observational audit 
tools, and media-fill testing. 

t Media-fill testing of aseptic work skills shall be performed initially before beginning to prepare CSPs and at least annually thereafter for low- and 
medium-risk level compounding; and semiannually for high-risk level compounding. 

t Compounding personnel who fail written tests, observational audits, or whose media-fill test vials have one or more units showing visible microbial 
contamination, shall be reinstructed and re-evaluated by expert compounding personnel to ensure correction of all aseptic work practice deficiencies. 

t Compounding personnel shall pass all evaluations prior to resuming compounding of sterile preparations. 

t Compounding personnel must demonstrate proficiency of proper hand hygiene, garbing, and consistent cleaning procedures in addition to didactic 
evaluation and aseptic media fill. 

t Cleaning and disinfecting procedures performed by other support personnel shall be thoroughly trained in proper hand hygiene, and garbing, 
cleaning, and disinfection procedures by a qualified aseptic compounding expert. 

t Support personnel shall routinely undergo performance evaluation of proper hand hygiene, garbing, and all applicable cleaning and disinfecting 
procedures conducted by a qualified aseptic compounding expert. 

Competency Evaluation of Garbing and Aseptic Work Practices 

t Compounding personnel shall be evaluated initially prior to beginning compounding CSP5 and whenever an aseptic media fill is performed using a 

Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding Personnel and the personnel glove fingertip sampling 
procedures. 

Aseptic Work Practice Assessment and Evaluation via Personnel Glove Fingertip Sampling 

f Monitoring of compounding personnel glove fingertips shall be performed for all CSP risk level compounding. 

t Glove fingertip sampling shall be used to evaluate the competency of personnel in performing hand hygiene and garbing procedures in addition to 
educating compounding personnel on proper work practices. 

f All personnel shall demonstrate competency in proper hand hygiene and garbing procedures in addition to aseptic work practices. 

t Sterile contact agar plates shall be used to sample the gloved fingertips of compounding personnel after garbing to assess garbing competency and 
after completing the media-fill preparation. 

f Gloves shall not be disinfected with sterile 70% IPA immediately prior to sampling. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 33 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (Continued) 

Garbing and Gloving Competency Evaluation 

t Compounding personnel shall be visually observed during the process of performing hand hygiene and garbing procedures. 

t The visual observation shall be documented on a Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding 
Personnel and maintained to provide a permanent record of and long-term assessment of personnel competency. 

Gloved Fingertip Sampling 

t Immediately after the compounder completes the hand hygiene and garbing procedure, the evaluator shall collect a gloved fingertip and thumb 
sample from both hands of the compounder onto appropriate agar plates by lightly pressing each finger tip into the agar. 

t The plates shall be incubated for the appropriate incubation period and at the appropriate temperature. 

t All employees shall successfully complete an initial competency evaluation and gloved fingertip/thumb sampling procedure (0 cfu) no less than three 
times before initially being allowed to compound CSP5 for human use. 

t After completing the initial gowning and gloving competency evaluation, re-evaluation of all compounding personnel shall occur at least annually 
for low- and medium-risk level CSP5 and semiannually for high-risk level CSPs before being allowed to continue compounding CSPs. 

t Gloves shall not be disinfected with sterile 70% IPA prior to testing. 

t The sampled gloves shall be immediately discarded and proper hand hygiene performed after sampling. The nutrient agar plates shall be incubated 
as stated below. 

t The cfu action level for gloved hands shall be based on the total number of cfu on both gloves and not per hand. 

1 
Results should be reported separately as number of cfu per employee per hand (left hand, right hand). 

Incubation Period 

t At the end of the designated sampling period, the agar plates are recovered, covers secured, inverted and incubated at a temperature and for a 

time period conducive to multiplication of microorganisms. Trypticase soy agar (TSA) with lecithin and polysorbate 80 shall be incubated at 35°± 2° 
for 2—3 days. 

Aseptic Manipulation Competency Evaluation 

t All compounding personnel shall have their aseptic technique and related practice competency evaluated initially during the media-fill test proce- 
dure and subsequent annual or semiannual media-fill test procedures on the Sample Form for Assessing Aseptic Technique and Related Practices of 
Compounding Personnel. 

Media-Fill Test Procedure 

t The skill of personnel to aseptically prepare CSPs shall be evaluated using sterile fluid bacterial culture media-fill verification. 

t Media-filled vials shall be incubated within a range of 35° ± 2° for 14 days. 

Surface Cleaning and Disinfection Sampling and Assessment 

t Surface sampling shall be performed in all ISO classified areas on a periodic basis and can be accomplished using contact plates and/or swabs and 
shall be done at the conclusion of compounding. 

t Locations to be sampled shall be defined in a sample plan or on a form. 
Cleaning and Disinfecting Competency Evaluation 

t Compounding personnel and other personnel responsible for cleaning shall be visually observed during the process of performing cleaning and 
disinfecting procedures during initial personnel training on cleaning procedures, changes in cleaning staff and at the completion of any Media-Fill 
Test Procedure. 

t Visual observation shall be documented on a Sample Form for Assessing Cleaning and Disinfection Procedures and maintained to provide a 

permanent record of, and long-term assessment of, personnel competency. 
Surface Collection Methods 

t Immediately after sampling a surface with the contact plate, the sampled area shall be thoroughly wiped with a non-shedding wipe soaked in sterile 
70% IPA. 

1 
Results should be reported as cfu per unit of surface area. 

Action Levels, Documentation, and Data Evaluation 

t Environmental sampling data shall be collected and reviewed on a routine basis as a means of evaluating the overall control of the compounding 
environment. 

t If an activity consistently shows elevated levels of microbial growth, competent microbiology personnel shall be consulted. 

t An investigation into the source of the contamination shall be conducted. 

f When gloved fingertip sample results exceeds action levels after proper incubation, a review of hand hygiene and garbing procedures as well as 

glove and surface disinfection procedures and work practices shall be performed and documented. 

1 
Any cfu count that exceeds its respective action level should prompt a re-evaluation of the adequacy of personnel work practices, cleaning 

procedures, operational procedures, and air filtration efficiency within the aseptic compounding location. 

SUGGESTED STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES 

f All facilities are required to have these, and they must include at least the items enumerated in this section. 

FINISHED PREPARATION RELEASE CHECKS AND TESTS 

Inspection of Solution Dosage Forms and Review of Compounding Procedures 

f Review procedures and documents to ensure sterility, purity, correct identities and amounts of ingredients, and stability. 

t Visually inspect for abnormal particulate matter and color, and intact containers and seals. 

Sterility Testing 

t High-risk level CSPs prepared in batches of more than 25 identical containers, or exposed longer than 12 hours at 2° to 8°, and 6 hours at warmer 
than 8° before being sterilized. 



34 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

APPENDICES 
Appendix I. Principal Competencies, Conditions, Practices, and Quality Assurances That Are Required (t "shall") and Recommended 

"should") in (iSP Chapter (continued) 

Bacterial Endotoxin (Pyrogen) Testing 

t High-risk level CSPs, excluding those for inhalation and ophthalmic administration, prepared in batches of more than 25 identical containers, or 
exposed longer than 12 hours at 2° to 8°, and 6 hours at warmer than 8°, before being sterilized. 

Identity and Strength Verification of Ingredients 

t Written procedures to verify correct identity, quality, amounts, and purities of ingredients used in CSPs. 

t Written procedures to ensure labels of CSPs contain correct names and amounts or concentrations of ingredients, total volumes, beyond-use dates, 
storage conditions, and route(s) of administration. 

STORAGE AND BEYOND-USE DATING 

Determining Beyond-Use Dates 

t Use the general criteria in USP in the absence of direct stability-indicating assays or authoritative literature that supports longer durations. 

MAINTAINING STERILITY, PURITY, AND STABILITY OF DISPENSED AND DISTRIBUTED CSP5 

t Written procedures for proper packaging, storage, and transportation conditions to maintain sterility, quality, purity, and strength of CSP5. 

Redispensed CSPs 

t When sterility, and acceptable purity, strength, and quality can be ensured. 

t Assignment of sterility storage times and stability beyond-use dates that occur later than those of originally dispensed CSP5 must be based on results 
of sterility testing and quantitative assay of ingredients. 

Packaging and Transporting CSPs 

t Packaging maintains physical integrity, sterility, stability, and purity of CSPs. 

t Modes of transport that maintain appropriate temperatures and prevent damage to CSP5. 

PATIENT OR CAREGIVER TRAINING 

t Multiple component formal training program to ensure patients and caregivers understand the proper storage, handling, use, and disposal of CSP5. 

PATIENT MONITORING AND ADVERSE EVENTS REPORTING 

t Written standard procedures describe means for patients to ask questions and report concerns and adverse events with CSPs, and for compounding 
supervisors to correct and prevent future problems. 

Adverse events and defects with CSP5 reported to FDA's MedWatch and USP's MEDMARX programs. 



USP 35 Physical Tests / '(797k Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 35 

Appendix ii. Common Disinfectants Used in Health Care for Inanimate Surfaces and Noncritical Devices, and Their Microbial Activity 
and Properties' 

Chemical Cateriorv of Dicinfectant 

Isopropyl 
alcohol 

Accelerated 
hydrogen 
peroxide 

Quaternary 
Ammonium 

(e.g., 
dodecyl 

dimethyl 
ammonium 
chloride) Phenolics 

Chlorine 
(e.g., 

sodium 
hypochlo- 

rite) 

lodophors 
(e.g., 

povidone- 
iodine) 

Concentration 
Used 60-95% 0.4-1.6% ag 0.4—1.6% ag 

100-5000 
ppm 30-50 ppm 

. 

Microbial Inactiva- 
tion2 

Bacteria + + + + + + 

Lipophilic viruses + + + + + + 

Hydrophilic viruses ± + ± ± + ± 
. 

M.tuberculosis ÷ + ± + + ± 

Mycotic agents 
(fungi) + + + + + ± 

Bacterial Spores — — — — + — 

Important Chemi- 
cal & Physical 
Properties 

Shelf life >1 week + + + + + + 

Corrosive or dele- 
terious effects ± — — — ± ± 

Non-evaporable 
residue — — + + — + 

Inactivated by or- 
ganic matter + ± + ± + + 

Skin irritant ± — + + + ± 

Eye irritant + — + ÷ + + 

Respiratory irritant — — — — + — 

Systemic toxicity + — + + + + 

Key to abbreviation and symbols: ag = diluted with water; ppm = parts per million; + = yes; — = no; ± = variable results. 
1 Modified from World Health Organization, Laboratory Bio Safety Manual 1983 and Rutala WA, "Antisepsis, disinfection and sterilization in the 
hospital and related institutions," Manual of Clinical Microbiology, American Society for Microbiology, Washington, DC, 1995, pages 227-245. 

2 Inactivation of the most common microorganisms (i.e., bacteria) occurs with a contact time of �1 minute; inactivation of spores requires longer 
contact times (e.g., 5-10 minutes for 5,000 ppm chlorine solution against C. difficile spores). Reference: Perez), Springthorpe VS. Sattar SA, "Activity of 
selected oxidizing microbicides against the spores of Clostridium difficile: Relevance to environmental control," American journal of Infection Control, August 
2005, pages 320-325. 

Accelerated hydrogen peroxide is a new generation of hydrogen peroxide-based germicides in which the potency and performance of the active 
ingredient have been enhanced and accelerated through the use of appropriate acids and detergents. 



36 Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Appendix Ill. Sample Form for Assessing Hand Hygiene and Garbing Related Practices of Compounding Personnel 

Printed name and position/title of person assessed: 

_______________________________________________ 

Name of facility or location: 

_______________________________________________ 

Hand Hygiene and Garbing Practices: The qualified evaluator will check each space for which the person being assessed has acceptably completed 
the described activity, prints N/A if the activity is not applicable to the assessment session or N/O if the activity was not observed.* 

_____________ 

Presents in a clean appropriate attire and manner. 

____________ 

Wears no cosmetics or jewelry (watches, rings, earrings, etc. piercing jewelry included) upon entry into ante-areas. 

____________ 

Brings no food or drinks into or stored in the ante-areas or buffer areas. 

_____________ 

Is aware of the line of demarcation separating clean and dirty sides and observes required activities. 

Dons shoe covers or designated clean-area shoes one at a time, placing the covered or designated shoe on clean side of the line of 

_____________ 

demarcation, as appropriate. 

____________ 

Dons beard cover if necessary. 

____________ 

Dons head cover assuring that all hair is covered. 

____________ 

Dons face mask to cover bridge of nose down to include chin. 

____________ 

Performs hand hygiene procedure by wetting hands and forearms and washing using soap and warm water for at least 30 seconds. 

____________ 

Dries hands and forearms using lint-free towel or hand dryer. 

_____________ 

Selects the appropriate sized gown examining for any holes, tears, or other defects. 

____________ 

Dons gown and ensures full closure. 

Disinfects hands again using a waterless alcohol-based surgical hand scrub with persistent activity and allows hands to dry thoroughly 

____________ 

before donning sterile gloves. 

_____________ 

Dons appropriate sized sterile gloves ensuring that there is a tight fit with no excess glove material at the fingertips. 

____________ 

Examines gloves ensuring that there are no defects, holes, or tears. 

While engaging in sterile compounding activities, routinely disinfects gloves with sterile 70% IPA prior to work in the direct com- 
pounding area (DCA) and after touching items or surfaces that may contaminate gloves. 

____________ 

Removes PPE on the clean side of the ante-area. 

____________ 

Removes gloves and performs hand hygiene. 

____________ 

Removes gown and discards it, or hangs it on hook if it is to be reused within the same work day. 

____________ 

Removes and discards mask, head cover, and beard cover (if used). 

Removes shoe covers or shoes one at a time, ensuring that uncovered foot is placed on the dirty side of the line of demarcation and 
performs hand hygiene again. (Removes and discards shoe covers every time the compounding area is exited). 

*The person assessed is immediately informed of all unacceptable activities (i.e., spaces lacking check marks, N/A, or N/O) and shown and 
informed of specific corrections. 

Signature of Person Assessed Printed Name Date 

Signature of Qualified Evaluator Printed Name Date 



USP 35 Physical Tests / '(797k Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile 37 

Appendix IV. Sample Form for Assessing Aseptic Technique and Related Practices of Compounding Personnel 

Printed name and position/title of person assessed: 

_______________________________________________ 

Name of facility or location: 

_______________________________________________ 

Aseptic Technique, Safety, and Quality Assurance Practices: The qualified evaluator checks each space for which the person being assessed has 
acceptably completed the described activity, prints N/A if the activity is not applicable to the assessment session or Nb if the activity was not 
observed.* 

____________ 

Completes the Hand Hygiene and Garbing Competency Assessment Form. 

____________ 

Performs proper hand hygiene, garbing, and gloving procedures according to SOPs. 

____________ 

Disinfects ISO Class 5 device surfaces with an appropriate agent. 

_____________ 

Disinfects components/vials with an appropriate agent prior to placing into ISO Class 5 work area. 

_____________ 

Introduces only essential materials in a proper arrangement in the ISO Class 5 work area. 

_____________ 

Does not interrupt, impede, or divert flow of first-air to critical sites. 

____________ 

Ensures syringes, needles, and tubing remain in their individual packaging and are only opened in ISO Class 5 work area. 

____________ 

Performs manipulations only in the appropriate DCA of the ISO Class 5 device. 

_____________ 

Does not expose critical sites to contact contamination or worse than ISO Class 5 air. 

____________ 

Disinfects stoppers, injection ports, and ampul necks by wiping with sterile 70% IPA and allows sufficient time to dry. 

____________ 

Affixes needles to syringes without contact contamination. 

_____________ 

Punctures vial stoppers and spikes infusion ports without contact contamination. 

_____________ 

Labels preparation(s) correctly. 

____________ 

Disinfects sterile gloves routinely by wiping with sterile 70% IPA during prolonged compounding manipulations. 

____________ 

Cleans, sets up, and calibrates automated compounding device (e.g., "TPN compounder") according to manufacturer's instructions. 
Disposes of sharps and waste according to institutional policy or recognized guidelines. 

*The person assessed is immediately informed of all unacceptable activities (i.e., spaces lacking check marks, N/A, or N/O) and shown and 
informed of specific corrections. 

Signature of Person Assessed Printed Name Date 

Signature of Qualified Evaluator Printed Name Date 



38 '(797) Pharmaceutical Compounding—Sterile / Physical Tests USP 35 

Appendix V. Sample Form for Assessing Cleaning and Disinfection Procedures 

Printed name and position/title of person assessed: 

_______________________________________________ 

Name of facility or location: 

_______________________________________________ 

Cleaning and Disinfection Practices: The qualified evaluator will check each space for which the person being assessed has acceptably completed the 
described activity, prints N/A if the activity is not applicable to the assessment session or Nb if the activity was not observed.* 

Daily Tasks: 

Prepares correct concentration of disinfectant solution according to manufacturer's instructions. 

_____________ 

Uses appropriately labeled container for the type of surface to be cleaned (floor, wall, production bins, etc.). 

_____________ 

Documents disinfectant solution preparation. 

____________ 

Follows garbing procedures when performing any cleaning activities. 

At the beginning of each shift, cleans all ISO Class 5 devices prior to compounding in the following order: walls, IV bar, automated 
compounders, and work surface. 

____________ 

Uses a lint free wipe soaked with sterile 70% PA or other approved disinfectant solution and allows to dry completely. 

____________ 

Removes all compounder components and cleans all ISO Class 5 areas as stated above at the end of each shift. 

_____________ 

Cleans all counters and easily cleanable work surfaces. 

Mops floors, using the mop labeled "floors," starting at the wall opposite the room entry door; mops floor surface in even strokes 
toward the operator. Moves carts as needed to clean entire floor surface. Use of a microfiber cleaning system is an acceptable 

_____________ 

alternative to mops. 

_____________ 

In the ante-area, cleans sink and all contact surfaces; cleans floor with a disinfectant solution or uses microfiber cleaning system. 

Monthly Tasks: 

Performs monthly cleaning on a designated day. Prepares a disinfectant solution as stated in daily tasks that is appropriate for the 

____________ 

surfaces to be cleaned. 

Cleans buffer area and ante-area ceiling, walls, and storage shelving with a disinfectant solution and a mop or uses a microfiber 
cleaning system. 

Once ISO Class 5 area is clean, cleans compounding room ceiling, followed by walls and ending with the floor. Uses appropriate 

____________ 

labeled mops or microfiber cleaning system. 

Cleans all buffer area totes and storage shelves by removing contents and using a germicidal detergent soaked lint free wipe, cleans 
the inside surfaces of the tote and then the entire exterior surfaces of the tote. Allows totes to dry. Prior to replacing contents into 

____________ 

tote, wipes tote with sterile 70% IPA to remove disinfectant residue. Uses new wipe as needed. 

Cleans all buffer area carts by removing contents and using germicidal detergent soaked lint free wipe, cleans all carts starting with 
the top shelf and top of post, working down to wheels. Cleans the under side of shelves in a similar manner. Uses a new wipe for 
each cart. Allows to dry. Wipes carts with sterile 70% IPA wetted lint-free wipe to remove any disinfectant residue. Uses new wipe as 

____________ 

needed. 

_____________ 

Cleans buffer area chairs, the interior and exterior of trash bins, and storage bins using disinfectant solution soaked lint free wipe. 

____________ 

Documents all cleaning activities as to who performed such activities with date and time noted. 

*The person assessed is immediately informed of all unacceptable activities (i.e., spaces lacking check marks, N/A, or N/O) and shown and 
informed of specific corrections. 

Signature of Person Assessed Printed Name Date 

Signature of Qualified Evaluator Printed Name Date 



of frauds against American manufacturers and has 
provided the cover for the importation of foreign 
counterfeit drugs. 

"(6) The existing system of providing drug samples 
to physicians through manufacturer's representatives 
has been abused for decades and has resulted in the 
sale to consumers of misbranded, expired, and adul- 
terated pharmaceuticals. 

"(7) The bulk resale of below wholesale priced pre- 
scription drugs by health care entities, for ultimate 
sale at retail, helps fuel the diversion market and is 
an unfair form of competition to wholesalers and re- 
tailers that must pay otherwise prevailing market 
prices. 

"(8) The effect of these several practices and condi- 
tions is to create an unacceptable risk that counter- 
feit, adulterated, misbranded, subpotent, or expired 
drugs will be sold to American consumers." 

§ 353a. Pharmacy compounding 
(a) In general 

Sections 351(a)(2)(B), 352(0(1), and 355 of this 
title shall not apply to a drug product if the 
drug product is compounded for an identified in- 
dividual patient based on the unsolicited receipt 
of a valid prescription order or a notation, ap- 
proved by the prescribing practitioner, on the 
prescription order that a compounded product is 
necessary for the identified patient, if the drug 
product meets the requirements of this section, 
and if the compounding— 

(1) is by— 
(A) a licensed pharmacist in a State li- 

censed pharmacy or a Federal facility, or 
(B) a licensed physician, 

on the prescription order for such individual 
patient made by a licensed physician or other 
licensed practitioner authorized by State law 
to prescribe drugs; or 

(2)(A) is by a licensed pharmacist or licensed 
physician in limited quantities before the re- 
ceipt of a valid prescription order for such in- 
dividual patient; and 

(B) is based on a history of the licensed 
pharmacist or licensed physician receiving 
valid prescription orders for the compounding 
of the drug product, which orders have been 
generated solely within an established rela- 
tionship between— 

(i) the licensed pharmacist or licensed phy- 
sician; and 

(ii)(I) such individual patient for whom the 
prescription order will be provided; or 

(II) the physician or other licensed practi- 
tioner who will write such prescription 
order. 

(b) Compounded drug 
(1) Licensed pharmacist and licensed physician 

A drug product may be compounded under 
subsection (a) of this section if the licensed 
pharmacist or licensed physician— 

(A) compounds the drug product using 
bulk drug substances, as defined in regula- 
tions of the Secretary published at section 
207.3(a)(4) of title 21 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations— 

(i) that— 
(I) comply with the standards of an ap- 

plicable United States Pharmacopoeia or 
National Formulary monograph, if a 
monograph exists, and the United States 

Pharmacopoeia chapter on pharmacy 
compounding; 

(II) if such a monograph does not exist, 
are drug substances that are components 
of drugs approved by the Secretary; or 

(III) if such a monograph does not exist 
and the drug substance is not a compo- 
nent of a drug approved by the Sec- 
retary, that appear on a list developed 
by the Secretary through regulations is- 
sued by the Secretary under subsection 
(d) of this section; 
(ii) that are manufactured by an estab- 

lishment that is registered under section 
360 of this title (including a foreign estab- 
lishment that is registered under section 
360(i) of this title); and 

(iii) that are accompanied by valid cer- 
tificates of analysis for each bulk drug 
substance; 
(B) compounds the drug product using in- 

gredients (other than bulk drug substances) 
that comply with the standards of an appli- 
cable United States Pharmacopoeia or Na- 
tional Formulary monograph, if a mono- 
graph exists, and the United States Pharma- 
copoeia chapter on pharmacy compounding; 

(C) does not compound a drug product that 
appears on a list published by the Secretary 
in the Federal Register of drug products that 
have been withdrawn or removed from the 
market because such drug products or com- 
ponents of such drug products have been 
found to be unsafe or not effective; and 

(D) does not compound regularly or in in- 
ordinate amounts (as defined by the Sec- 
retary) any drug products that are essen- 
tially copies of a commercially available 
drug product. 

(2) Definition 
For purposes of paragraph (1)(D), the term 

"essentially a copy of a commercially avail- 
able drug product" does not include a drug 
product in which there is a change, made for 
an identified individual patient, which pro- 
duces for that patient a significant difference, 
as determined by the prescribing practitioner, 
between the compounded drug and the com- 
parable commercially available drug product. 
(3) Drug product 

A drug product may be compounded under 
subsection (a) only if— 

(A) such drug product is not a drug prod- 
uct identified by the Secretary by regulation 
as a drug product that presents demon- 
strable difficulties for compounding that 
reasonably demonstrate an adverse effect on 
the safety or effectiveness of that drug prod- 
uct; and 

(B) such drug product is compounded in a 
State— 

(i) that has entered into a memorandum 
of understanding with the Secretary which 
addresses the distribution of inordinate 
amounts of compounded drug products 
interstate and provides for appropriate in- 
vestigation by a State agency of com- 
plaints relating to compounded drug prod- 
ucts distributed outside such State; or 

§ 353a TITLE 21—FOOD AND DRUGS Page 156 



Page 157 TITLE 21—FOOD AND DRUGS § 353b 

(ii) that has not entered into the memo- 
randum of understanding described in 
clause (i) and the licensed pharmacist, li- 
censed pharmacy, or licensed physician 
distributes (or causes to be distributed) 
compounded drug products out of the 
State in which they are compounded in 
quantities that do not exceed 5 percent of 
the total prescription orders dispensed or 
distributed by such pharmacy or physi- 
cian. 

The Secretary shall, in consultation with the 
National Association of Boards of Pharmacy, 
develop a standard memorandum of under- 
standing for use by the States in complying 
with subparagraph (B)(i). 

(c) Advertising and promotion 
A drug may be compounded under subsection 

(a) of this section only if the pharmacy, licensed 
pharmacist, or licensed physician does not ad- 
vertise or promote the compounding of any par- 
ticular drug, class of drug, or type of drug. The 
pharmacy, licensed pharmacist, or licensed phy- 
sician may advertise and promote the com- 
pounding service provided by the licensed phar- 
macist or licensed physician. 
(d) Regulations 

(1) In general 
The Secretary shall issue regulations to im- 

plement this section. Before issuing regula- 
tions to implement subsections 
(b)(1)(A)(i)(III), (b)(1)(C), or (b)(3)(A) of this 
section, the Secretary shall convene and con- 
sult an advisory committee on compounding 
unless the Secretary determines that the issu- 
ance of such regulations before consultation is 
necessary to protect the public health. The ad- 
visory committee shall include representa- 
tives from the National Association of Boards 
of Pharmacy, the United States Pharma- 
copoeia, pharmacy, physician, and consumer 
organizations, and other experts selected by 
the Secretary. 
(2) Limiting compounding 

The Secretary, in consultation with the 
United States Pharmacopoeia Convention, In- 
corporated, shall promulgate regulations iden- 
tifying drug substances that may be used in 
compounding under subsection (b)(1)(A)(i)(III) 
of this section for which a monograph does not 
exist or which are not components of drug 
products approved by the Secretary. The Sec- 
retary shall include in the regulation the cri- 
teria for such substances, which shall include 
historical use, reports in peer reviewed medi- 
cal literature, or other criteria the Secretary 
may identify. 

(e) Application 
This section shall not apply to— 

(1) compounded positron emission tomog- 
raphy drugs as defined in section 321(H) of this 
title; or 

(2) radiopharmaceuticals. 
(f) "Compounding" defined 

As used in this section, the term "compound- 
ing" does not include mixing, reconstituting, or 
other such acts that are performed in accord- 

ance with directions contained in approved la- 
beling provided by the product's manufacturer 
and other manufacturer directions consistent 
with that labeling. 
(June 25, 1938, ch. 675, §503A, as added Pub. L. 
105—115, title I, § 127(a), Nov. 21, 1997, 111 Stat. 
2328.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section 127(b) of Pub. L. 105—115 provided that: "Sec- 
tion 503A of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 
21 U.S.C. 353a], added by subsection (a), shall take ef- 
feet upon the expiration of the 1-year period beginning 
on the date of the enactment of this Act Nov. 21, 
1997]." 

§ 353b. Prereview of television advertisements 

(a) In general 
The Secretary may require the submission of 

any television advertisement for a drug (includ- 
ing any script, story board, rough, or a com- 
pleted video production of the television adver- 
tisement) to the Secretary for review under this 
section not later than 45 days before dissemina- 
tion of the television advertisement. 
(b) Review 

In conducting a review of a television adver- 
tisement under this section, the Secretary may 
make recommendations with respect to informa- 
tion included in the label of the drug— 

(1) on changes that are— 
(A) necessary to protect the consumer 

good and well-being; or 
(B) consistent with prescribing informa- 

tion for the product under review; and 
(2) if appropriate and if information exists, 

on statements for inclusion in the advertise- 
ment to address the specific efficacy of the 
drug as it relates to specific population 
groups, including elderly populations, chil- 
dren, and racial and ethnic minorities. 

(c) No authority to require changes 
Except as provided by subsection (e), this sec- 

tion does not authorize the Secretary to make 
or direct changes in any material submitted 
pursuant to subsection (a). 
(d) Elderly populations, children, racially and 

ethnically diverse communities 
In formulating recommendations under sub- 

section (b), the Secretary shall take into consid- 
eration the impact of the advertised drug on el- 
derly populations, children, and racially and 
ethnically diverse communities. 
(e) Specific disclosures 

(1) Serious risk; safety protocol 
In conducting a review of a television adver- 

tisement under this section, if the Secretary 
determines that the advertisement would be 
false or misleading without a specific disclo- 
sure about a serious risk listed in the labeling 
of the drug involved, the Secretary may re- 
quire inclusion of such disclosure in the adver- 
tisement. 
(2) Date of approval 

In conducting a review of a television adver- 
tisement under this section, the Secretary 



THE COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE 

November 12, 2012 

MAJORITY MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members, Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations 

FROM: Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations Staff 

RE: Hearing on "The Fungal Meningitis Outbreak: Could It Have Been Prevented?" 

On Wednesday, November 14, 2012, at 10:00 a.m. in room 2123 of the Rayburn House 
Office Building, the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations will hold a hearing entitled 
"The Fungal Meningitis Outbreak: Could It Have Been Prevented?" 

This hearing will examine the facts surrounding the recent outbreak of fungal meningitis 
and other infections linked to contaminated injectable products made and distributed by the New 
England Compounding Center (NECC) in Framingham, Massachusetts. This hearing will also 
examine the history of complaints associated with NECC and its affiliated entities as well as 
related inspections and actions taken by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and the 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH). 

I. WITNESSES 

Panel One 

Ms. Joyce Lovelace 

Panel Two 

Mr. Barry J. Cadden 
President, Co-Owner and Director of Pharmacy 
New England Compounding Center 

Panel Three 

The Honorable Margaret A. Hamburg, MD 
Commissioner 
U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 2 

Dr. Lauren Smith, MD, MPH 
Interim Commissioner 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health (MDPH) 

II. BACKGROUND - THE CURRENT OUTBREAK 

This section of the memorandum details the facts surrounding the current outbreak and 
the investigation of the outbreak by State and Federal regulators. In Part III, the memorandum 
describes the history of Federal and State inspections of NECC and resulting regulatory actions 
since the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy (MBP or Massachusetts Board of 
Pharmacy) approved the company's pharmacy license in 1998. 

A. The Fun gal Meningitis Outbreak 

As of November 9, 2012, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has 
confirmed that 32 people have died and 438 people have been sickened across 19 states after 
receiving contaminated injectable products made and distributed by NECC. 

The first case of meningitis connected to this outbreak was confirmed on September 18, 
2012, in Tennessee. On September 21, 2012, CDC was notified by the Tennessee Department of 
Health (TDH) of a patient with the onset of meningitis approximately 19 days after receiving an 
epidural steroid injection at an ambulatory surgical center in Nashville. By September 24, 2012, 
TDH officials contacted MDPH informing them that it was investigating an outbreak of fungal 
meningitis in six patients at the same Nashville facility, with onsets between July 30 and 
September 18, 2012. All six patients had received the same injectable steroid, preservative-free 
methylprednisolone acetate (80 mg/ml), compounded and distributed by NECC. 

On September 25, 2012, CDC informed FDA of the situation and that three lots of 
methylprednisolone acetate were suspected. Methylprednisolone acetate is a type of injectable 
steroid suspension often used to treat pain and swelling. MDPH convened a multi-agency 
teleconference with CDC, FDA, and Tennessee officials. Mr. Barry Cadden and Mr. Gregory 
Conigliaro, principal owners of NECC, joined the call as well. Mr. Cadden and Mr. Conigliaro 
immediately provided documentation of all facilities that had received shipments from the three 
suspect lots of methylprednisolone acetate. On September 26, 2012, NECC instituted a 
voluntary recall of the suspect lots. In total, 17,676 doses had been shipped to customers in 23 
states. More than 14,000 patients had already received a potentially contaminated injection. 
Based on surveillance efforts, CDC soon identified a patient in North Carolina displaying 
symptoms of meningitis after receiving an injection from one of the suspect lots. 

From September 26, 2012, through October 5, 2012, investigators from FDA's New 
England District Office (FDA NWE-DO) and MDPH inspected the NECC facility. During their 
inspection, State and Federal investigators observed visible black particulate matter in sealed 
vials of purportedly sterile methylprednisolone acetate that had been returned to NECC. MDPH 
noted that NECC's records showed inconsistencies in sterilization processes. The Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy voted to obtain a voluntary surrender of NECC 'S license, which NECC 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 3 

agreed to on October 3. NECC also agreed to a voluntary recall of all products intended for 
injection into the area around the spinal cord or brain. On October 4, FDA and MDPH 
confirmed that fungal contamination had been identified in a vial from one of the suspect lots. 
FDA and CDC recommended that all health care professionals cease use and remove any 
material produced by NECC from their facilities.' On October 6, NECC announced a voluntary 
recall of all NECC products currently in circulation. On October 8, Mr. Cadden and Mr. Glenn 2 voluntarily ceased practice as pharmacists pending completion of the 3 In 
addition to the evidence of contamination, investigators also found evidence that the NECC had 
not been compounding drugs for patient-specific prescriptions. Instead, the NECC accepted 
patient lists generated by a clinical facility and provided to NECC for the purpose of obtaining its 
products. On October 16, agents from FDA's Office of Criminal Investigations, along with local 
authorities, raided the NECC Framingham, Massachusetts facility. 

The MDPH and FDA also inspected two other companies owned by Barry Cadden, 
Ameridose, LLC (Ameridose) and Alaunus Pharmaceutical, LLC (Alaunus) on October 10, 
2012, and October 14, 2012, respectively. NECC, Ameridose, and Alaunus share common 
ownership and corporate structures. Cadden is a co-owner of Ameridose, a pharmacy and 
wholesaler based in Westborough, Massachusetts, and Alaunus, a wholesaler located next to 
NECC in Framingham. Cadden, his wife, Lisa Conigliaro-Cadden, her brother, Gregory 
Conigliaro, and his wife, Carla Conigliaro, serve as directors of all three companies. Based on 
their shared ownership, MDPH requested that Ameridose and Alaunus cease all pharmacy 
operations and the manufacturing and distribution of any products. According to MDPH, Mr. 
Cadden agreed to immediately resign as manager, director and from any other management 
position at NECC, Ameridose, and Alaunus. 

The FDA's investigation of the fungal meningitis outbreak has expanded beyond 
NECC's methylprednisolone acetate product. For example, FDA confirmed the report of a 
patient with meningitis-like symptoms potentially caused by epidural injection of a different 
NECC product, triamcinolone acetonide. In addition, one transplant patient developed a fungal 
infection after having been administered NECC-produced cardioplegic solution during surgery. 
Based on these reports, FDA announced that the sterility of any injectable drugs, including 
ophthalmic drugs that are injectable or used in conjunction with eye surgery, and cardioplegic 
solutions produced by NECC are of significant concern. FDA recommended that patients who 
received these products on or after May 21, 2012, be alerted to the potential risk of infection. 

1 FDA subsequently released definitive laboratory confirmation of the presence of fungal contaminants in sealed 
vials of methylprednisolone acetate in two of the three suspected lots from NECC. As of November 3, 2012, testing 
of the third lot, as well as other NECC products, was ongoing. 
2 MDPH referred to Mr. Chin as a ] at NECC" in its preliminary investigative report. MASS. DEP'T OF PUB. 

HEALTH, NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER (NECC) PRELIMINARY INVESTIGATION FINDINGS: BD. OF 

REGISTRATION IN PHARMACY REPORT, at 7 (Oct. 23, 2012) hereinafter, "MDPH OCT. 23, 2012 REPORT"I. In a 
discussion with Committee staff, Mr. Chin's counsel stated that he started with the company on April 21, 2004 and 
was the compounding pharmacist in one of NECC's clean rooms until the company ceased operations. 

On October 22, 2012, MBP authorized MDPH staff to request voluntary permanent surrender of the licenses of 
Barry Cadden, Glenn Chin, and Lisa Conigliaro-Cadden, as well as NECC. According to MDPH, in response to an 
inquiry from Committee staff on November 4, this process is ongoing. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 4 

FDA reported on October 31, 2012, that Ameridose was voluntarily recalling all of its 
unexpired products in circulation. While the investigation remained open at the time of the 
announcement, FDA stated that its preliminary findings raised sterility concerns. The agency 
further clarified that the recall was not based on reports of patients with infections associated 
with any Ameridose product. 

On November 1, 2012, FDA and CDC released laboratory results that confirmed 
contaminants in two other NECC products: preservative-free betamethasone repository injection 
and cardioplegia solution. Bacteria were present in three separate lots of betamethasone and in a 
single lot of cardioplegia solution. CDC continues to investigate reports of potential infections 
in patients receiving NECC products. As of November 1, CDC had not received reports of 
laboratory-confirmed cases of infection due to bacteria present in betamethasone or cardioplegia 
solution from NECC. 

B. Preliminary Findings Released by State and Federal Regulators Regarding the 
Outbreak 

On October 23, 2012, MDPH issued a Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report setting 
forth its preliminary findings relating to the ongoing investigation into the 4 In 
addition, on October 26, 2012, FDA released its inspectional observations as well as a 
corresponding Form FDA 483 (483) to 5 

As previously discussed, investigators from FDA NWE-DO and MDPH first visited the 
NECC facility in connection with this outbreak on September 26, 2012. According to MDPH, 
upon arriving at NECC, investigators found NECC employees cleaning sterile compounding 
areas. They also detected signs of bleach 6 Despite NECC's apparent attempt 
to present the facility as compliant, State investigators still identified "serious deficiencies and 
significant violations of pharmacy law and regulations that clearly placed the public's health and 
safety at 7 

During the facility inspections, MDPH documented numerous deficiencies and 
violations, including the following: 

See MDPH OCT. 23, 2012 REPORT, supra note 2. MDPH noted that this report constitutes early findings that may 
be subject to revision as the investigation unfolds. Id. at 2. 

See U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER FORM FDA 483 (Oct. 26, 2012), 
available at 

AElectronicReadingRoom/UCM325980.pdf hereinafter, "FDA OCT. 26,2012 FORM 483"]. FDA issues a Form 483 
at the end of an inspection when the investigators believe that the observed conditions or practices, in their 
judgment, may indicate violations of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act or any related regulations. FDA has stated 
that its goal in issuing a 483 is to have the company act quickly to correct potential violations. The FDA considers 
the 483 along with an Establishment Inspection Report (EIR), prepared by FDA investigators, and any other 
information, including any responses received from the company. The agency then considers whether further action 
is appropriate. 
6 MDPH OCT. 23, 2012 REPORT, supra note 2, at 6. 

1d. at2. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 5 

• NECC distributed large batches of compounded sterile products directly to facilities for 
apparent general use rather than requiring a prescription for an individual 8 

• NECC distributed two of the recalled lots of methylprednisolone acetate prior to 
receiving results of sterility 9 

• Final sterilization of product did not follow proper standards pursuant to United States 
Pharmacopeia Standard 797 (USP 797) and NECC's own Standard Operating 
Procedures. 

• NECC failed to test its autoclaves to ensure proper function. 

• Visible black particulate matter was seen in several recalled sealed vials of 
methylprednisolone acetate. 12 

• "Tacky" mats located outside the clean room were visibly soiled with assorted debris, 
violating USP 79713 

• A leaking boiler adjacent to the clean room had created a pool of water, an environment 
susceptible to contaminant 14 
FDA investigators documented similar observations in the 483, as well as additional 

problems with NECC's ability to maintain its clean room and ensure the sterility of its products, 
as further supported by sample testing results. FDA's observations included the following: 

• Eighty-three vials out of a bin containing 321 vials of methylprednisolone acetate from 
one of the suspect lots contained what appeared to be greenish black foreign matter. 
Seventeen vials from the same bin were observed to contain what appeared to be white 
filamentous material. Fifty of these vials were sent to an FDA laboratory for testing and 
all 50 tested positive for microbial 15 

Id at3. 
1d. at 4. MDPH noted that while NECC's records showed that the sterility tests found no contamination, the 
adequacy of NECC's sterility testing methods remained under examination. 
'°Id. 

Id. An autoclave is a device used to sterilize equipment by subjecting it to high pressure steam. If done properly, 
all bacteria and fungi would be inactivated. 
1d. 
13 Id. A clean room is an enclosed space that is designed and maintained to have a controlled environment with low 
levels of airborne particles and surface contamination. Production of sterile drug products in a properly functioning 
and maintained clean room reduces the risk of the introduction of microbial contamination into the drug during 
processing, including filling into its final container. 
Id. at5. 
15 FDA OcT. 26, 2012 FoRM 483, supra note 5, at 1. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 6 

• NECC provided no documentation or evidence to support that the autoclave used to 
sterilize suspensions formulated using non-sterile active pharmaceutical ingredients and 
raw materials was 6 

• NECC is abutted to the rear by a recycling facility producing airborne particulates. 
NECC rooftop HVAC units were estimated to be located approximately 100 feet from the 
recycling 7 

• NECC's air conditioning was turned off at night, including in the clean rooms, despite the 
importance of maintaining a consistent temperature and level of 8 

• NECC's own environmental monitoring program yielded violative levels of bacteria and 
mold in clean rooms used for the production of sterile drug products, between January 
2012 and September 2012. Despite the company's action limits having been exceeded, 
there was no investigation conducted by the company, no identification of the isolates, no 
product impact assessments conducted, and no documented corrective actions taken to 
remove the microbial contamination from the 9 
Further, according to Steven Lynn, Director of FDA's Office of Manufacturing and 

Product Quality, on an October 26, 2012, media call describing FDA's observations and test 
results, there was overgrowth of bacteria or fungi in at least one sample testing dish. When 
asked to clarify what he meant, Mr. Lynn stated, "Think of a plant just growing out of ° 

III. HISTORY OF STATE AND FEDERAL INVESTIGATIONS OF NECC 

While investigating the meningitis outbreak over the last six weeks, FDA and MDPH 
investigators have observed many serious deficiencies and significant violations of law and good 
compounding practices. These violations, however, were not a first for NECC. Documents 
produced to the Committee by the FDA and the Massachusetts Board show that NECC has a 
long history of very similar, if not identical, underlying misconduct. Some of the violations 
observed by regulators as early as 2002 include the company's failure to maintain adequate 
safeguards for sterile injectable products the very issue at the center of the current meningitis 
outbreak. In fact, since the company's formation, FDA conducted three prior series of 
inspections of NECC, each based on a separate set of allegations or events, issuing two Form 
483s in 2002 and 2003 and one Warning Letter in 2006. The Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy 
has an even more extensive history with NECC. Prior to this outbreak, the Board had 
investigated at least twelve separate complaints concerning NECC or Mr. Cadden, issued at least 

1d. 
1d. at7. 
1d. at 1. 

1d. 
20 Media Call, U.S. Food & Drug Admin., FDA Media Call: Fungal Meningitis Outbreak FDA Inspection 
Observations (Form 483) at NECC (Oct. 26, 2012) (statement of Steven Lynn, Dir., Office of Mfg. & Product 
Quality, Office of Compliance, Ctr. for Drug Evaluation & Research, FDA). 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 7 

four advisory letters and/or informal reprimands, and entered into a consent agreement with the 
company in 2006. 

Set forth below is the chronology of FDA's and the Massachusetts Board's inspections 
and involvement with the NECC, including any resulting administrative actions. 

A. Formation of NECC 

On May 12, 1998, MBP approved NECC's pharmacy license. Mr. Barry Cadden was 
listed as the managing pharmacist. Less than a year later, in April 1999, MBP filed a complaint 
against Mr. Cadden for providing a practitioner with blank prescription pads referring to NECC, 
in clear violation of MBP ' The MBP Complaint Committee reviewed the 
complaint on October 19, 1999, and voted to issue an informal reprimand to Mr. Cadden and 
NECC and dismiss the case. 

NEC C's efforts to market its products were the subject of additional complaints starting 
in 2001. On June 27, 2001, MBP staff completed an investigation into a report submitted by the 
Idaho Board of Pharmacy that NECC was soliciting business for drug products which should 
have been discontinued by the manufacturer. In addition, on April 18, 2002, MBP received a 
letter from the Nevada Board of Pharmacy describing allegations of NECC selling non FDA- 
approved products to physicians in Nevada. Committee staff is unaware of any additional 
administrative or disciplinary actions taken as a result of these reports. 

Further, based on various complaints of unprofessional conduct and failure to adhere to 
standards of practice between 2002 and 2004, MBP issued three advisory letters to Mr. Cadden 
and NECC on September 30, 2004. Each of the advisory letters addressed complaints made by 
out-of-state pharmacists or practitioners in Texas, South Dakota, Iowa, and Wisconsin. Each of 
these complaints related to NECC's solicitation of out-of-state prescriptions for office use. The 
three advisory letters issued by the Massachusetts Board stated that the letters did not constitute 
disciplinary action but communicated the Board's concern regarding the conduct that was the 
basis for the complaint. The letters requested that NECC adopt "quality assurance measures. 
to reduce the risk of 22 

B. 2002 Inspections Related to Betamethasone Repository Injection 

In March 2002, two adverse events were reported to FDA through its MedWatch 23 Both adverse events involved epidural betamethasone repository injections 

21 247 CMR § 9.0l(l),(13). 
22 Advisory Letter from James T. Devita, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Bany Cadden, 
Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Sept. 30, 2004) (Docket Nos. DS-03-060, PH-03-070 
Texas). See also Advisory Letter from James T. Devita, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry 
Cadden, Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Sept. 30, 2004) (Docket Nos. DS-04-062, PH-04- 
161 Iowa and Wisconsin) and Advisory Letter from James T. Devita, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in 
Pharmacy, to Barry Cadden, Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Sept. 30, 2004) (Docket Nos. 
DS-03-036, PH-03-042 South Dakota). 
23 The investigative report corresponding to an April 16, 2002 FDA Form 483 states that FDA investigators 
contacted the MedWatch reporter who informed them that "a total of probably 5 incidents occurred after using 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 8 

(betamethasone acetate and betamethasone sodium phosphate suspension 6 mg/mi), from the 
same lot compounded and distributed by NECC. Like methylprednisolone acetate, 
betamethasone repository injections are steroid solutions often used to treat pain and swelling. 
FDA alerted the MBP and invited them to participate in an inspection commencing April 9, 
2002. FDA noted in its investigative report that the agency had no previous investigation or 
inspection history with the firm, though MBP had inspected NECC in the past. 

While the investigation was underway, FDA investigators were informed of the fact that 
this was the same formulation compounded by a pharmacy in California that was associated with 
numerous hospitalizations (including five cases of meningitis, three of which were fatal) in 
Walnut Creek, California the previous year. Before detailing areas of concern and related 
discussions with NECC management, FDA' s investigative report states, "Very similar 
operational problems existed with the California Compounding Pharmacy that were encountered 
with 24 

On the day the inspection began, Barry Cadden was identified as the Owner and Director 
of Pharmacy at NECC. He identified his wife, Lisa Cadden, as Vice President and introduced 
her to investigators on the second day of the inspection. According to the report, Mr. Cadden 
stated that NECC had eight employees, three of whom were involved in compounding, though he 
was the only individual who compounded sterile product. He informed investigators that "they 
fill patient specific prescriptions only, and that they have no wholesale 25 

According to FDA's inspection report, on the first day of the inspection, "Mr. Cadden 
was cooperative and] supplied some documents. The second day of the inspection, Mr. Cadden 
had a complete change in attitude and] basically would not provide any additional information 
either by responding to questions or providing records. Mr. Cadden challenged FDA 
jurisdiction/authority to be at his 26 FDA investigators were initially "allowed to 
review and were furnished with copies of records related to the compounding of Betamethasone 
Repository Injection," though by the second day, "Mr. Cadden stated that he was no longer 
willing to provide us with any additional records, unless we would identify the specific lot. 

subject Betamethasone on patients." U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., FDA INSPECTION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND 

COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC., at 4 (Apr. 16, 2002) hereinafter, "FDA APR. 16,2002 INSPECTION REPORT"]. In a 
February 2003 presentation to MBP, FDA identified the adverse events as "dizziness, shortness of breath, 
diaphoresis, drop in blood pressure to 55/44." U.S. Food & Drug Admin., Inspectional History of New England 
Compounding Center (NECC), Presentation to Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, Div. of Health Professions 
Licensure, Dep't of Pub. Health, Commonwealth of Mass. (Feb. 5, 2003) hereinafter, "Feb. 5, 2003 FDA 
Presentation"]. 
24 FDA APR. 16, 2002 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 23, at 3. 
25 Id. at 6. 
26 Id. at 2. Questions and discussion regarding issues related to FDA's jurisdiction and authority are addressed in 
detail later in this memorandum. With respect to the April 2002 inspection, the FDA investigative report cites § 

704(a) of the FDCA, which describes the nature of FDA inspectional authority with regard to drug manufacturers, 
pharmacies, and other entities, and specifically excludes traditional retail pharmacies, operating in accordance with 
local pharmacy laws, from being obligated to furnish certain records. The report summarizes, that the investigators' 
inspectional authority at pharmacies operating in a retail capacity consists of being able to "enter, at reasonable 
times (Section 704(a)(l)(A), and inspect, at reasonable times, and within reasonable limits and in a reasonable 
manner (Section 704(a)(1)(b), the establishment and its equipment and operations. However, the owner of the 
pharmacy is not obligated to furnish records, as is normally the case when a facility that processes drug products is 
being inspected." Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 9 

that was the focus of this investigation. Since we had been specifically directed by FDA's 
Office of Compliance in the Center for Drug Evaluation and Research (CDER)] not to divulge 
this lot number, we were not in a position to comply with Mr. Cadden's request. From this point 
on, no additional records were provided or 27 

Nonetheless, FDA investigators had managed to obtain a printout of the betamethasone 
products compounded by NECC in 2002 and identified the suspect lot on the list, which 
according to the lot number was compounded on February 1, 2002. Mr. Cadden informed FDA 
that there were no compounding records associated with the suspect lot number. According to 
FDA's report, Mr. Cadden stated that he did not believe betamethasone was ever compounded 
for that lot number, although FDA noted that Mr. Cadden "could not provide any documents to 
support his belief, such as a cancelled lot 28 Further, FDA investigators contacted the 
healthcare professional who reported the adverse events to confirm that the suspect lot existed. 
That individual informed FDA that he had returned the betamethasone product to NECC and, in 
fact, had spoken by telephone to Mr. Cadden about the 29 

While FDA's investigative report did not mention any test results of the suspect lot in 
question, the MBP report stated, "The FDA was concerned regarding a specific date the Batch of 
Betamethasone Repository 6mg/ml was compounded. The error was first reported in March 
2002. The unnamed facility conducted sterility and Endotoxin tests on the product prepared by 
NECC, the results indicated a positive test for ° While FDA did not include this 
specific test result in its investigative report, FDA did discuss other positive endotoxin test 
results of betamethasone samples from NECC lots. 

According to the FDA report, on April 9, 2002, "Mr. Cadden stated on/about 3/19/02 
through 4/6/02 he received ARL (Analytical Research Laboratories)] results positive for 
endotoxin (greater than 100 ppb). . . . He stated these lots (about 4 lots total) were awaiting 
disposal at his facility." 31 After changing the suspending agent based on research he conducted, 
Mr. Cadden informed investigators that he made an additional lot on April 6, 2002. He stated 
that he "sent his samples to ARL, then left the product beaker covered with aluminum foil on the 
magnetic stirrer in the hood awaiting lab results" and that it "could take anywhere from seven to 
ten days to obtain lab 32 When questioned about this practice, "Mr. Cadden stated he 
didn't want to waste the money on vials or the effort in transfilling the vials if the 4/6/02 lot 
failed testing. He stated he would transfill the vials upon receiving satisfactory lab 33 
FDA investigators "discussed with Mr. Cadden that this was not an acceptable process for 
maintaining product 34 When FDA investigators returned to NECC on April 10, "the 

Id at3. Id at4. 
29 Id. 
MAs5. DEP'T OF PUB. HEALTH, INVESTIGATION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER & BARRY 

CADDEN, at 5 (Mar. 4, 2004) hereinafter, "MDPH MAR. 4, 2004 INVESTIGATION REPORT"I. 
31 FDA APR. 16, 2002 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 23, at 7. Analytical Research Laboratories (ARL) is a third- 
party analytical testing lab located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma that NECC has sent samples to for sterility and 
endotoxin testing since at least 2002. 
32 Id. 

Id. 
Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 10 

hood was clean and Mr. Cadden was asked the whereabouts of the 4/06/02 lot. He stated he 
received negative lab results the night before, and had transfilled the lot into vials that morning. 
He accredited the positive endotoxins to the previous suspending 35 FDA did not 
comment on this assertion, nor is it known how long Mr. Cadden had been using the previous 
suspending agent. According to the report, "The FDA investigator suggested to Mr. Cadden that 
he retest the 4/6/02 lot again after transfihling the vials since the product sat in a beaker for 5 

days," which he agreed to 36 
After completing the inspection, FDA investigators concluded that d]ue to 

jurisdictionlconfidentiality restrictions, this FDA investigation could not proceed to any 
definitive resolution of issues raised in the FDA] Headquarters assignment" and that individuals 
in CDER's Office of Compliance "were fully informed of problems/barriers that were 
encountered throughout the 37 FDA's investigative report was finalized on April 16, 
2002. Prior to concluding the investigation, FDA investigators spoke with officials in CDER's 
Office of Compliance and FDA NWE-DO about NECC's "poor practices and areas of concern" 
and "impressed upon them] that due to limitations on information gathering and access to 
records, the FD-483 observations could not/would not be supported with 38 
Nonetheless, "FDA Investigators were directed to issue the 483 (even in light of the lack of 39 The observations in the 483 focused primarily on two violations: the sterility 
of the betamethasone product and NECC's failure to account for records related to the suspect lot 
of betamethasone, which subsequently tested positive for ° 

After issuing the 483, Mr. Cadden was given an opportunity to respond to FDA 
investigators' observations during an exit interview. With regard to the sterility of the beaker, 
and keeping the solution in the beaker for seven to ten days while waiting for test results, Mr. 
Cadden claimed that this was not his usual ' FDA's report also indicated that Mr. 
Cadden provided contradictory information to the agency. During the exit interview, Mr. 
Cadden claimed that the beaker capped with foil "didn't contain the betamethasone 42 

The report completed by the Massachusetts Board substantiated FDA's observations 
about NECC's practices. Specifically, it noted that the beaker remained in the hood capped with 
foil while tests were conducted, a process which could take up to seven 43 

In February 2003, following the April 2002 inspections with FDA, the MBP filed formal 
complaints against NECC and Mr. Cadden "based on the failure to adhere to standards of 
practice for compounding prescriptions. Specifically, the pharmacy and pharmacist engaged in 
unprofessional conduct as exhibited :] failing to follow guidelines, sterility procedures, record 

Id. 
36 Id. 
1d. at5. 
1d. 
1d. 
See U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING PHARMACY, INC. FORM FDA 483 (Apr. 16, 2002) 
hereinafter, "FDA APR. 16, 2002 FORM 483"I. 
41 

See FDA APR. 16, 2002 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 23, at 10. 
42 Id. 
See MDPH MAR. 4, 2004 INVESTIGATION REPORT, supra note 30, at 6. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 11 

keeping requirements, and] batch records requirements], and] failing to provide certificates of 
analysis, rroof of sterility testing, Endotoxin test results, batch numbers and prescriptions upon 
request." 

On February 7, 2003, the MBP investigator requested that NECC provide responses to 
certain questions raised during the investigation. Documents produced to the Committee show 
that the Massachusetts Board found that NECC took certain corrective measures in February 
2003, including hiring a consultant to develop policy and 45 The MBP subsequently 
conducted follow-up inspections on February 20, 2003, and one year later on February 20, 2004. 
According to the MBP report, the investigator found the facility was in 46 Even so, 
the MBP investigator recommended that the Board issue a formal reprimand to NECC. 
According to the report, which was signed by the investigator and her supervisor on March 4, 
2004, the investigator based her decision on NECC's "history as it d] to prior concerns of 
the Board agents since 

One particular concern, which was raised between the investigator's April 2002 
inspections with FDA and her recommendation for formal reprimand, may have informed her 
decision. In October 2002, FDA investigators informed the MBP that a second incident with 
NECC had occurred, this one involving methylprednisolone 48 

C. 2002 Inspections Related to Methylprednisolone Acetate 

On October 2, 2002, CDER's Office of Compliance requested an FDA NWE-DO 
investigation to obtain information regarding three MedWatch reports associated with the use of 
methylprednisolone acetate that was compounded by NECC in May 2002. According to FDA's 
investigative report, the three MedWatch reports were reported by a physician and the chief 
pharmacist at a hospital in Rochester, New York and detailed adverse events that occurred in two 
patients on July 17, 2002, after they had received inrathecal injections. After speaking with 
hospital staff, FDA documented that both patients were hospitalized with meningitis-like 
symptoms, received antibiotics, and fully recovered. Hospital staff reported that the vials from 
the same lot distributed by NECC were tested at the hospital and confirmed positive for bacteria. 
When asked about actions taken by the hospital, the hospital's chief pharmacist stated that he 
"instructed his staff to remove all the methylprednisolone acetate injectable with the affected lot 
number from the hospital 49 The hospital's quality assurance supervisor stated that she 
first contacted Mr. Cadden on or about July 23, 2002, "to make him aware of the adverse 50 She informed the FDA investigator that "she does not believe the hospital] returned 
any of the vials to NECC" and that s]he believes they were all retained for FDA sampling and 
hospital investigative ' 
1d. at4. 

Id. at 6. 
46 

See id. at Attachment 1. 
1d. at9. 
1d. at7. 
U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., FDA INSPECTION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER, at 4 (Feb. 10, 
2003) hereinafter, "FDA FEB. 10,2003 INSPECTION REPORT"]. 
1d. at5. 
51 Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 12 

On September 9, 2002, FDA's New York District Office collected a sample from the 
hospital, purportedly from the suspect lot. The sample was then sent to FDA's Northeast 
Regional Lab (NRL) for sterility and endotoxin testing. However, according to FDA's report, 
NRL "was unable to perform the sample analysis until 4 days after the compounded product's 
expiration date" and the sample collected from the hospital was from "a different lot than the 
MedWatch 52 

FDA and MBP investigators first visited NECC in relation to the adverse events 
associated with methylprednisolone acetate on October 24, 2002. FDA's investigation report 
noted that FDA last inspected NECC in April 2002 and a 483 was issued to Mr. Cadden citing 
"sterility issues pertaining to the transfilling practices for betamethasone repository 53 
The report further stated that t]he practices that were cited on the previous FDA 483 were not 
in place and therefore the correction of these items was not an issue" during the current 54 The report also highlighted the fact that since April 2002, NECC's operating space 
approximately doubled in size and it was now "planning on marketing and selling compounded 
products in all 50 U.S. states per Mr. Cadden." 

Mr. Cadden informed the FDA inspector that he had been "telephoned by an employee 
from the Rochester hospital] to notify him of the adverse reactions" and that the employee "told 
him the adverse reactions were due to 'administration errors' since the injections were 
administered 56 According to FDA's investigator, Mr. Cadden stated that the 
hospital had in fact "returned vials of the affected product to the firm and that NECC sent a 
sample of the returned product to its contract laboratory EARL] for test results, 
which were reported to the FDA investigator on August 22, 2002, came back negative for 
endotoxin content and microbial contamination. 

On December 11, 2002, FDA NRL informed FDA NWE-DO that four out of fourteen of 
the vials it sampled from the lot provided by the New York District Office tested positive for 
bacteria. On December 12, FDA and MBP investigations returned to NECC with the test results 
to "determine what his intentions would be regarding the compounded 58 Mr. Cadden 
informed them that "NECC had conducted a recall of the product in August a fact that 
he failed to share with the investigators during the October 24 inspection. When asked about 
details of the recall, Mr. Cadden stated that he had "received 500-600 vials back from customers 
as a result of the recall. He retested one (1) of these vials for sterility and endotoxin and the 
results were 60 The inspectors were understandably concerned that this was not a 

52 Id. 
Id. at 3. 

1d. at 1. 

Id. at 3. 

1d. at7. 
Id. 

1d. at8. 
Id. 

60 Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 13 

representative sample and explained to Mr. Cadden that "the USP contains guidance on sample 
sizes in relation to lot ' 

While at the firm on December 12 and again on December 18, 2002, inspectors collected 
samples of methylprednisolone acetate as well as betamethasone repository injection. According 
to FDA's report, t]hese compounds were chosen because they were associated with the current 
and April 2002 MedWatch reports" and are "compounded by similar methods according to Mr. 62 One FDA investigator returned to NECC on January 14 and 15, 2003. Mr. Cadden 
notified him that "if he] had any other requests or questions pertaining to any of their procedures 
and compounding activities, he] was to put his] requests or questions in 63 According 
to the investigator, Mr. Cadden brought this up when the investigator "requested the address and 
name of customers who received the suspect lot of] methylprednisolone . . . acetate] injection. 

•,,64 The investigator followed up after the inspection with a written request for the names and 
customers. Neither Mr. Cadden nor his lawyer chose to respond to the written request and still 
had not done so when, weeks later on February 10, 2003, the FDA issued NECC a 483 that 
detailed concerns observed during the 65 

On February 5, 2003, prior to FDA's issuance of the Form 483 to NECC, a meeting was 
convened with officials from FDA NWE-DO, CDER's Office of Compliance, and MBP in order 
to "review the inspectional history of the New England Compounding Center and develop a joint 
strategy for achieving safe compounding practices at the 66 The immediate concern was 
determining how to ensure the outstanding violative betamethasone was removed from 
commerce. Asserting its authority under section 50 1(b) of the FDCA, FDA discussed its ability 
to seize the adulterated lot that "is still within 67 While NECC did ultimately agree to a 
voluntary recall, officials also discussed alternative courses of action they should consider. 
CDER officials "reminded everyone that in a similar situation with a South Carolina 
compounding pharmacy, FDA issued a press release when the firm failed to take recall action in 
a timely 68 Based on a PowerPoint slide deck attached to an FDA memorandum 
describing the February 5, 2003, meeting, it is clear that FDA was discussing a fungal meningitis 
outbreak that had occurred a few months prior in South Carolina associated with 
methylprednisolone acetate compounded by a facility in Spartanburg, South Carolina, which 
ultimately resulted in two 69 
61 Id. Mr. Cadden informed investigators on December 18, 2002, in a related discussion about sample sizes, that he 
"used the recommendations of his contract laboratory (ARL)." Id. at 9. 
1d at8. 
63 Id. at 11. 
64 Id. 
65 

See id. 
66 Memorandum from Kristina Joyce, Consumer Safety Officer, New England Dist. Office, FDA & Mark 
Lookabaugh, Compliance Officer, New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Central File, February 5, 2003 Meeting with 
Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy/Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), at 
1 (Feb. 24, 2003) hereinafter, "Feb. 24, 2003 FDA Memorandum"]. 
1d. at2. 
68 Id. 
69 

See Feb. 5, 2003 FDA Presentation, supra note 23, at 7-8. See also David Brown, Previous Fungal Meningitis 
Outbreak a Decade Ago Resulted in No Oversight Changes, WASH. POST (Nov. 5, 2012), 
http ://www.washingtonpost.comlnational/health-science/previous-fungal-meningitis-outbreak-a-decade-ago- 
resulted-in-no-oversight-changes/20 12/11/05/841 7d84e- 1 fa8- 11 e2-9cd5-b55c3 83 88962_story.html. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 14 

At this point, a] discussion was held to decide if NECC should be considered a 
manufacturer or a compounder," which would govern how to handle the betamethasone recall, 
but also inform ways to address "NECC's poor compounding practices that] would not 
necessarily be ultimately resolved by such an 70 It was decided that "current findings 
supported a compounding role" and that "the state would be in a better position to gain 
compliance or take regulatory action against NECC as ' It is noteworthy that after 
closing out the inspection report by issuing the 483 and convening this meeting with State 
officials, FDA's primary NECC investigator and her supervisor recommended that the "firm be 
prohibited from manufacturing until they can demonstrate ability to make product reproducibly 
and 72 They further noted that if the State was "unwilling to take action, they] ed the] firm be enjoined for GMP 73 

With respect to next steps, it was agreed that the State would ask Mr. Cadden "to appear 
before the Board of Pharmacy to answer to the current 74 MBP counsel Susan 
Manning discussed the fact that "Massachusetts pharmacy law states that pharmacists must act in 
accordance with USP recommendations" and that "this alone would imply he could be held to 
those standards by the 75 In addition, she stated that "although the state's authority does 
not include the ability to fine pharmacists, the state is able to take actions against a pharmacy's 
license, including revocation and 76 It was agreed that CDER's Office of 
Compliance "would work on documenting the deviations from USP standards for the 77 
Furthermore, among other things, the State requested from FDA examples of previous consent 
agreements and MedWatch reports regarding adverse events from products compounded by 78 

The February 5, 2003, meeting concluded by FDA "emphasizing the potential for serious 
public health consequences if NECC's compounding practices, in particular those relating to 
sterile products, are not 79 FDA acknowledged that "so long as a pharmacy's 
operations fall within the scope of the practice of pharmacy (as outlined in FDA's Compliance 
Policy Guide 460.200), FDA will generally continue to defer to state authorities for regulatory 
oversight. In such cases FDA will seek to engage cooperative efforts aimed at achieving 
regulatory compliance and ensuring the safety and quality of compounded ° 

On February 10, 2003, FDA issued a Form 483 to NECC and met with Mr. Cadden to 
review the documented observations, which included inadequate documentation to verify 
whether sterile drug products met set standards, a failure to maintain complaint files, and a lack 

70 Feb. 24, 2003 FDA Memorandum, supra note 66, at 2. 
71 Id. 
US FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., FDA ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORT OF NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING 

CENTER, at 1 (Feb. 10, 2003) hereinafter, "FDA FEB. 10, 2003 ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORT"]. 
Id. 
Feb. 24, 2003 FDA Memorandum, supra note 66, at 3. 
Id. 

76 Id. 
Id. 

78 
See id. 

Id. 
Id at 3-4. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 15 

of documentation for the reported adverse events associated with the suspect lot of 
methyiprednisolone 81 In addition, FDA noted in the corresponding inspection report that 
results from the samples investigators collected from NECC "revealed that the firm has sterility 
and potency issues with injectable steroid suspensions (betamethasone repository USP and 
methylprednisolone acetate 82 During the meeting, Mr. Cadden was informed that "at this 
point the FDA is considering NECC a pharmacy compounder and not a drug 83 

On February 26, 2003, Mr. Cadden responded in writing to the 483 detailing a variety of 
corrective measures. He stated, "We are committed to complying with applicable laws and 
regulations, to ensuring high-quality care for our patients, and to upgrading our compounding 84 This letter was supplemented on May 16, 2003, detailing additional standard 
operating procedures that were being implemented at the facility related to compounding, as well 
as product and environmental testing protocols. Mr. Cadden noted "that while we are validating 
NECC sterile injectable] preparation processes, we are not subject to (nor are we voluntarily 
subjecting ourselves to) current good manufacturing practices (cGMP5) as promulgated by FDA, 
since we are a compounding pharmacy, not a 85 

With respect to Massachusetts, the MBP did not commence any regulatory actions until 
well over a year later, on September 21, 2004, when the Board voted unanimously in favor of 
proposing a consent agreement to NECC and Mr. Cadden to resolve the aforementioned 
complaints received and violations observed. Then-Executive Director of the MBP, Charles 
Young, formally offered Mr. Cadden the consent agreement on October 4, 2004, noting in a 
letter "that if you choose not to enter into the Agreement, the Board will proceed to a formal 86 

According to the terms of the proposed consent agreement, NECC would have to agree 
that it was entered into "as a result of an adverse event complaint report investigated by the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration" alleging that NECC "failed to comply with accepted standards 
in compounding a certain order for methyiprednisolone 87 In addition, NECC would 
agree that this conduct "constitutes professional misconduct warranting disciplinary action by the 
Board" and that NECC and Mr. Cadden would be "REPRIMANDED by the Board and 
NECC's] pharmacy registration and Mr. Cadden's] pharmacist license would be] placed on 

81 
See U.S. FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING CENTER FORM FDA 483 (Feb. 10, 2003) 

hereinafter, "FDA FEB. 10,2003 FORM 483"]. 
82 FDA FEB. 10, 2003 ESTABLISHMENT INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 72, at 1. 
83 FDA FEB. 10,2003 INSPECTION REPORT, supra note 49, at 20. 
84 Letter from Barry Cadden, Manager, New England Compounding Center, Inc., to Daryl A. Dewoskin, 
Investigator, FDA & Kristina M. Joyce, Investigator, FDA (Feb. 26, 2003) hereinafter, "Feb. 26, 2003 Cadden 
Letter"]. 
85 Letter from Barry Cadden, Manager, New England Compounding Center, Inc., to Daryl A. Dewoskin, 
Investigator, FDA & Kristina M. Joyce, Investigator, FDA (May 16, 2003) hereinafter, "May 16, 2003 Cadden 
Letter"]. 
86 Letter from Charles R. Young, Executive Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, 
Manager of Record, New England Compounding Ctr. (Oct. 4, 2004) (attaching proposed Consent Agreement). 
87 Proposed Consent Agreement, In the Matter of New England Compounding Center Registration No. 2848 Barry 
J. Cadden, R.Ph. License No. 21239, Docket Nos. DS-03-055, PH-03-066, at 1 (Mass. Bd. of Registration in 
Pharmacy, Oct. 4, 2004) hereinafter, "MPB Proposed Consent Agreement"]. 





Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 17 

MBP had "inspected the facility three times since last February (twice, with a representative 
from the FDA were not to follow up on the 
underlying complaints and violations covered in the proposed consent agreement, but were to 
investigate new allegations. Further, these inspections revealed additional violations by NECC. 

On April 27, 2004, MBP had received a complaint from a Wisconsin pharmacist that 
raised concerns about the safety and legality of a product NECC was soliciting. According to the 
complaint, an NECC representative offered "a product to our plastic surgery physician that he 
calls extra strength triple anesthetic 96 During the conversation, NECC "related to the 
individual] that he would need a prescription for the product and that we could use the name of a 
staff member if we wanted to. He said 'other institutions have used a ']s 97 When 
questioned about the legality of this approach, "He assured her it was legal. He indicated that 
after we received the product it was up to us how we used it and to whom it was 98 
Separate from this complaint, MBP received "an e-mail sent to the Board by a pharmacist 
practicing in Iowa. According to the complaint.. . NECC] is advertising compounded 
prescription products which may constitute manufacturing since they purport to be used by 
multiple patients using the same prescription 99 

On September 21, 2004, MBP assigned an investigator to "conduct a joint/inspection 
with FDA. . . It is alleged that NECC] is ing] non-FDA product Trypan Blue Dye to 
be used as a capillary stain during cardiac procedures. This dye is not approved for this 100 
On September 23, 2004, investigators from MBP and FDA NWE-DO visited NECC. According 
to a January 26, 2005, memorandum drafted by the FDA investigator, "This investigation was 
mainly to obtain information about the firm's compounding practices, as they relate to the 
compounding of Trypan blue 101 When investigators arrived, Mr. Cadden 
"acknowledged that he is the most responsible person in the firm" but also introduced them to 
Gregory Conigliaro who "reported that he just joined the company about eight months ago and] 
that he is a Civil Engineer by 2 

When FDA's investigator asked Mr. Cadden whether he had Trypan blue in stock, "He 
said no, because he just compounds the drug if he receives the prescriptions for certain 3 However, when the FDA investigator was shown the clean room, he noticed a 
drawer that was identified as "Trypan Blue." He requested that Mr. Cadden open the drawer and 
when he did, the investigator noted that there were 189 vials of the product. After being 

Nov. 11, 2004 Cirel Letter, supra note 91, at 2.The letter lists three inspection dates: February 20, 2004, 
September 23, 2004, and September 28, 2004. The letter further notes that the second and third inspections included 
a "representative from the FDA." 
96 E-mail from Wisconsin Dir. of Pharmacy, to James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy (Apr. 
27, 2004, 11:33 AM). 

Id. 
98 Id. 

Mass. Div. of Prof'l Licensure Office of Investigations, Request for StaffAssignment (requested May 27, 2004). 
Mass. Div. of Prof'l Licensure Office of Investigations, Request for StaffAssignment (assigned Sept. 21, 2004). 

'°' Memorandum from Investigator, New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Acting Team Leader, Div. of New Drugs & 
Labeling Compliance, FDA, Inspection/Investigation of New England Compounding Center 697 Waverly Street 
Framingham, MA 01702, at 1 (Jan. 26, 2005) hereinafter, "Jan. 26, 2005 FDA Memorandum"]. 
102 

103 Id. at 2. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 18 

informed that it was not an approved product and that NECC should not be compounding it, Mr. 
Cadden stated that he "did not know that it is not an approved 4 He then "told one of 
the employees in the laboratory to put the vials in quarantine which he told us will be eventually 

FDA and MBP investigators returned to NECC on September 28, 2004. When asked 
about the Trypan blue, Mr. Cadden asserted that his lawyer informed him that he did not have to 
quarantine the product and that "there is no regulation which states that Compounding 
Pharmacies cannot compound FDA non-approved 106 In addition he informed the 
investigators that he dispensed the product the day after the last inspection and that he intends to 
do so "until FDA/MABP will put in writing that they cannot compound it and] dispense it and 
the reason 7 When FDA' s investigator asked Mr. Conigliaro additional questions, "he 
became indignant and] he said that he does not really have the time to sit with us and] answer 
all those Further, according to the investigator, Mr. Cadden told Mr. Conigliaro, 
"Don't answer any more 109 Prior to leaving, FDA wrote down the questions in the 
assignment and left them with Mr. Conigliaro. On October 1, 2004, Mr. Conigliaro responded to 
the questions in writing, which were shared with FDA compliance staff.UO 

On October 27, 2004, MBP's investigator sent Mr. Cadden a letter with requests for 
responses and additional information related to Trypan blue production and distribution, 
including a fill log and a copy of all prescriptions dispensed "containing more than two (2) doses 
per patient." On November 8, 2004, Mr. Cadden responded to the letter with the requested 
information, along with corrective actions taken, and stated, "In summary, we regret that the 
invalid patient names were not discovered by our pharmacy processing staff We have taken 
immediate action to insure that physicians provide, and we verify, accurate patient names in the 2 This response was shared with FDA's investigator. On January 19, 2005, the FDA 
investigator notified Mr. Cadden by phone that the district office was "closing out the inspection 
based on his response letter to MBP], indicating his plan of corrective actions, which will also 
be forwarded to 3 

While FDA closed out its inspection, MBP voted on November 23, 2004, to file a formal 
complaint based on the investigator's 4 This was the same day the Board unanimously 
voted to deny NECC's request to revise the terms of the consent agreement that had been 
proposed on October 4, 2004, covering the complaints and violations associated with 

104 

Id. 
Id at3. 
107 

109 

"°Seeid. at4. 
Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center, to Investigator, Mass. Div. 

of Health Professions Licensure Office of Investigations, at 2 (Nov. 8, 2004). 
1d. 
113 

Jan. 26, 2005 FDA Memorandum, supra note 101, at 4. 
MASS. DEP'T OF PUB. HEALTH, INVESTIGATION REPORT OF BARRY CADDEN, at 2 (Nov. 23, 2004) 

hereinafter, "MDPH Nov. 23, 2004 INVESTIGATION REPORT"]. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 19 

betamethasone repository injection and methylprednisolone acetate. It is unclear as to whether 
these decisions were related. 

Based on the new terms of the amended consent agreement, the complaint related to 
distribution of Trypan blue products without valid prescriptions was subsumed into the 
agreement. Despite the fact that the underlying matters were now more extensive, the amended 
consent agreement no longer called for a formal reprimand for professional misconduct, a three 
year probationary period, or a number of mandatory conditions that would have been required 
prior to the Board terminating the probation. The amended consent agreement included a 
probationary period of one year that was stayed pending satisfactory documentation related to an 
inspection having been conducted by Pharmacy Support, Inc. (PSI), a Board-approved evaluator, 
within 45 days of the effective date of the agreement. Further, NECC had to provide MBP with 
satisfactory documentation that PSI's recommendations were implemented and that a second 
inspection was conducted within six months. If such conditions were met, neither NECC's 
registration nor Mr. Cadden's license would be placed on 115 

On January 30, 2006, PSI sent its initial audit report to Mr. Cadden and the MBP, noting 
that the assessment was conducted on January 17 and 18. The cover letter accompanying the 
report conicuded, "Although your facility has seen significant upgrades in facility design for 
sterile compounding operation, there were numerous significant gaps identified during the 
assessment therefore, it is the opinion of the auditors that your operation needs to be upgraded 
and enhanced to be in substantial compliance with United States Pharmacopeia <795> or 

16 The letter noted that major areas of concern included the fact that good 
documentation practices were inadequate; written procedures were admittedly not routinely 
followed; procedures were not in strict accordance with USP standards; end product testing was 
often performed on "stock solutions" and not the end product that is required; and validation of 
sterilization cycles and media fills were 17 Numerous corrective actions were 
recommended, including a plan to attain compliance. 

On April 7, 2006, PSI issued the final report, which concluded that NECC] has made 
significant improvements over the past several months. They have demonstrated the ability to be 
compliant with all state and federal regulations. y] have appropriate equipment, procedures, 
basic facility design and environmental 8 However, PSI stated that, among other 
things, "it is the opinion of our firm that in order for NECC to be in substantial compliance... 
a] r]edesign of clean room 1 where sterile preparations are compounded (Floor, Ceiling, and 
HVAC)" must 119 

115 
See Consent Agreement, In the Matter of New England Compounding Center Registration No. 2848 Barry J 

Cadden, R.Ph. License No. 21239, Docket Nos. DS-03-055, PH-03-066, DS-05-040 (Mass. Bd. of Registration in 
Pharmacy, Jan. 10, 2006) hereinafter, "MPB-NECC Consent Agreement"I. 
116 Letter from Vice President for Quality Operations, Pharm. Systems, Inc., to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, 
New England Compounding Center et al., at 2 (Jan. 30, 2006) (attaching initial audit report entitled "Observations 
Requiring Corrective Action"). 
Seeid. at 1-11. 
118 PHARM. SYSTEMS, INC., FINAL REPORT: USP <795>1<797> IMPLEMENTATION —NEW ENGLAND COMPOUNDING 

CENTER, FRAMINGHAM, MA, at 1 (Apr. 7, 2006) hereinafter, "PSI Final NECC Report"]. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 20 

On April 12, 2006, MBP ed] NECC on the progress to date" and requested 
that the firm "advise the Board in writing regarding NECC 's intentions" with respect to the 
outstanding recommendations of PSI as well as "projected timelines for ° Mr. 
Cadden responded on April 19 as to how NECC would address PSI's remaining concerns. 
Regarding the r]edesign of clean room 1," Mr. Cadden stated, "It should first be noted that all 
sterile preparations are compounded within Class 10 Microenvironments, within 'clean room 1.' 
The room is not maintained as a certified clean room, nor was it ever our ' Mr. Cadden 
did, however, assert that the "HVAC unit in that room will be improved per PSI's suggestions. 
The work has been scheduled. . . and is expected to be completed by May 18, On May 
10, 2006, MBP requested of NECC written confirmation of HVAC work completion, along with 
two other items, which Mr. Cadden confirmed on May 22.123 The next day, the Board voted to 
advise Mr. Cadden that NECC had satisfactorily completed the terms and conditions in the 
consent agreement. This decision was communicated to Mr. Cadden on June 2, 2006.124 

Apparently the MBP never shared the PSI report with the FDA. 

E. FDA Warning Letter Relating to September 2004 Inspections 

Based on violations of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (FDCA) either observed during 
FDA's joint inspections of NECC in September 2004, or otherwise brought to the agency's 
attention, FDA issued a Warning Letter to the company on December 4, 2006.125 According to 

s Regulatory Procedures Manual, "Warning Letters are issued to achieve voluntary 
compliance and to establish prior notice. . . . The agency position is that Warning Letters are 
issued only for violations of regulatory significance. Significant violations are those violations 
that may lead to enforcement action if not promptly and adequately 26 

The NECC Warning Letter set forth FDA's position on the agency's jurisdiction over 
new drugs, including compounded drugs, and its enforcement policy with respect to them. The 
Warning Letter referenced Compliance Policy Guide (CPG), section 460.200 "Pharmacy 
Compounding"], which was issued by FDA on May 29, 2002, and several of the factors laid out 
in the CPG that influence FDA's enforcement policy in specific cases. The Warning Letter then 

120 Letter from George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (Apr. 12, 2006). 
121 Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir. of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center, to George A. Cayer, 
President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, at 1 (Apr. 19, 2006). 
1d 
123 

See Letter from George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir. of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (May 10, 2006) and Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir. of Pharmacy, 
New England Compounding Center, to George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy (May 
22, 2006). 
124 

See Letter from George A. Cayer, President, Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (June 2, 2006). 
125 

See Warning Letter (NEW-06-07W) from Gail T. Costello, Dist. Dir., New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Barry 
J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center (Dec. 4, 2006) hereinafter, "FDA Warning 
Letter"]. 
US FOOD & DRUG ADMIN., REGULATORY PROCEDURES MANUAL, at § 4-1-1 (2011), available at 
http://www.fda.gov/ICECI/ComplianceManuals/RegulatoryProceduresManual/ucml 76870.htm. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 21 

discussed four primary areas of NECC activity that constituted violations of the FDCA for which 
the agency would not exercise its enforcement 27 

First, FDA noted that NECC may be compounding copies of commercially available drug 
products. Specifically, FDA highlighted Trypan blue products and the fact that "on December 
16, 2006, trypan blue ophthalmic solution was approved by FDA and it is commercially 28 In addition, according to the Warning Letter, FDA also learned that NECC "may 
be compounding 20% aminolevulinic acid solution," another commercially available, FDA- 
approved 29 FDA informed NECC that "FDA does not sanction the compounding of 
copies of FDA-approved, commercially available drugs and the agency will not exercise its 
enforcement discretion regarding the trypan blue and ALA products compounded by your 
firn-i." 30 

Second, FDA detailed how NECC had developed a standardized anesthetic drug product, 
promoted and sold it under the name "Extra Strength Triple Anesthetic Cream," and generated 
sales by giving physicians free samples. In addition to noting the public health risks associated 
with high dose local anesthetic creams, FDA stated, "These actions are not consistent with the 
traditional practice of pharmacy compounding, in which pharmacists extemporaneously 
compound reasonable quantities of drugs upon receipt of valid prescriptions from licensed 
practitioners to meet the unique medical needs of individual ' 

Third, FDA informed Mr. Cadden that it was "in receipt of a complaint alleging that 
NECC was] repackaging the approved injectable drug, Avastin, into syringes for subsequent 
promotion and sale to health The Warning Letter explained that FDA has an 
established policy, articulated in the CPG, concerning the manipulation of approved sterile drug 
products outside the scope of FDA approval and that FDA was "especially concerned with the 
potential microbial contamination associated with splitting Avastin a single-use, preservative- 
free, vial into multiple 33 

Finally, FDA stated that the agency had been informed that "although NECC] advises 
physicians that a prescription for an individually identified patient is necessary to receive 
compounded drugs, the] firm has reportedly also told physicians' offices that using a staff 
member's name on the prescription would 34 

FDA concluded the Warning Letter by informing Mr. Cadden that f]ailure to promptly 
correct these deviations may result in additional regulatory action without further notice, 
including seizure or injunction against you and your 35 The agency asked to be notified in 

127 
See FDA Warning Letter, supra note 125, at 2-5. 

128 Id. at 2. 
1d. 
1d. at 2-3. 
131 Id. at 3. 
1d. at4. 
Id. 
1d. at5. 
Id. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 22 

writing of "any steps that you will take to correct the noted violations, including an explanation 
of the steps taken to prevent the recurrence of similar 36 

On January 5, 2007, Mr. Cadden responded to FDA by noting at the outset that "the 
Warning Letter is based on an inspection of NECC that started on September 23, 2004, 
approximately twenty-eight months ago. . . FDA has not contacted us since concluding the 
inspection. Some of the letter's assertions no longer apply to NECC's 37 After 
disputing FDA's claim to having jurisdiction over compounded drugs, Mr. Cadden stated that 
"NECC does not compound copies of FDA-approved commercially available drugs, introduce 
unapproved new drugs into interstate commerce, does not need approved New Drug 
Applications] before dispensing its compounded medications, and does not process or repackage 
approved drugs in a manner that would subject us to FDA regulation. Nor are our compounded 
medications misbranded. NECC dispenses compounded medications upon the receipt of valid 38 

Without agreeing with the Warning Letter's assertions, Mr. Cadden informed FDA that, 
for business reasons, NECC stopped filling prescriptions for Trypan blue in August 2005 
(sixteen months before the Warning Letter) and for 20% aminolevulinic acid solution in May 
2006 (seven months before the Warning 139 

With respect to the topical anesthetic cream, Mr. Cadden asserted that NECC currently 
used the term "triple anesthetic cream' . . . but only as a way to literally describe the 
compounded medication as a convenience to our prescribing physicians. The term is in no way 
trademarked or ° Further, Mr. Cadden noted, "Although we do provide a very small 
quantity of medications (less than ten per month) free of charge, we do so only upon receipt of a 
valid prescription from a licensed practitioner to meet the unique medical needs of a particular 
patient.... A valid prescription does not become unlawful just because we do not charge the 
physician or patient. Should the FDA believe our position on this matter is incorrect, please ' 

Regarding the repackaging of Avastin, Mr. Cadden stated that it did not constitute 
manufacturing, that NECC only did so "upon receipt of a valid, patient-specific prescription," 
and that a]ll aspects of our sterile compounding and repacking operations were recently 
reviewed by an independent expert, who confirmed that NECC is in compliance with USP 
standards] ,,142 

Lastly, in response to FDA's assertion that NECC reportedly told physicians that the 
company would fill prescription written in the name of a staff member, Mr. Cadden stated, "This 

1d. 
137 Letter from Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Center, to Compliance Officer, New 
England Dist. Office, FDA et al,, at 1 (Jan. 5, 2007). 
1d. at3. 
139 

See id. at 3. 
1d. at4. 
141 Id. at 4-5. Id at5. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 23 

allegation contradicts all of our standard operating procedures. NECC has not made such a 
representation to anyone, and has no idea how or why FDA arrived at this 43 

FDA did not respond to Mr. Cadden's letter until almost two years later, on October 31, 
2008. Tn its reply, the agency d] and d] for the significant delay in this 44 Again, FDA presented an extensive summary of its authority over 
compounded drugs and factors the agency would consider in determining whether to exercise 
enforcement discretion. FDA accepted the firm's assertions with respect to the discontinued 
products; however, NEC C's letter did not alleviate 's concerns regarding the manner in 
which the company was promoting its products and the manipulation of sterile 45 

FDA concluded by stating, "We agree that the length of intervening period was unusual. 
This in no way diminishes our serious concerns about your firm's operation. Your firm must 
promptly correct the violations noted in the December 4, 2006, Warning Letter, and establish 
procedures to assure that such violations do not occur. Its failure to do so may result in 
enforcement action including seizure of the firm's products and/or an injunction against the firm 
and its principals. In a future inspection, we will confirm the commitments that you made in 
your response. We also will verify that your firm's compounding practices are consistent with 
the policy articulated in the CPG, and that your firm's operation is not otherwise at odds with the 
conditions under which the agency exercises enforcement discretion towards pharmacy 46 This letter, which was dated October 31, 2008 and sent in follow-up to an 
inspection that occurred in September 2004, is the last documented correspondence between 
FDA and NECC until the recent outbreak. 

F. Recent Colorado Complaints Related to NECC and Corresponding Actions 

With respect to additional correspondence between NECC and State authorities, the next 
interaction between the parties was a satisfactory MBP inspection conducted on May 24, 2011, 
in connection with the renovation and expansion of NECC's Framingham facility. This was the 
last inspection of NECC's facility prior to the meningitis outbreak. 

On July 26, 2012, however, an inspector for the Colorado Board of Pharmacy notified 
MBP Director James Coffey that NECC had violated the terms of a Cease and Desist Order the 
State had issued the company on April 15, 2011, based on NECC's distribution of"a stock 
compounded prescription drug. . . to a prescription drug outlet in the State of Mr. 
Coffey was informed that, during the course of a routine hospital pharmacy inspection in 
Colorado on July 17, 2012, the inspector observed a number of invoices and products from 
NECC. After this conversation, on July 26, 2012, the Colorado inspector emailed Mr. Coffey a 
copy of "the Special Report submitted to the Chief Inspector for the Pharmacy Board in 

Id. at 6. 
Letter from Compliance Officer, New England Dist. Office, FDA, to Barry J. Cadden, Dir, of Pharmacy, New 

England Compounding Center, at 1 (Oct. 31, 2008). 
See id. at 2-4. 

1d. at4. 
147 

See Cease and Desist Order, In the Matter of the Unauthorized and Unlawful Distribution of Prescription Drugs 
and/or Compounded Prescription Drugs in Colorado by New England Compounding Center, Inc., Case No. 2011- 
3973 (Cob. State Bd. of Pharmacy, Apr. 15, 2011). 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 24 

Colorado concerning the receipt of non-patient specific compounded products into 148 
The inspector asked Mr. Coffey for "any information that the Massachusetts Board could provide 
concerning if this practice is allowed under Massachusetts pharmacy 149 Mr. Coffey 
responded on July 27, "The Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy will respond as soon as possible 
following a thorough review and analysis of the 50 Mr. Coffey then forwarded his 
correspondence with the Colorado inspector, along with the report, to MBP counsel Susan 
Manning and others in the MDPH, including several past NECC 

in the Colorado report is email correspondence from May 2011 between FDA's 
Denver and New England District Offices relating to NECC's "illegal distribution of 
compounded drugs to hospitals in the Denver metropolitan 152 Several FDA employees 
were on this email chain, including at least one NWE-DO compliance officer involved in past 
NECC actions. Based on the Committee's investigation, it appears that FDA did not contact the 
MBP about the Colorado Board's concerns in May 2011 or any time thereafter, as Mr. Coffey 
was first informed by the Colorado inspector on July 26, 2012. 

MDPH officials informed Committee staff that they first became aware of this complaint 
from Colorado while reviewing responsive documents pursuant to the Committee's 
investigation. On November 6, 2012, Dr. Lauren Smith, MDPH Interim Commissioner, issued a 
statement that Mr. Coffey had been terminated and Susan Manning had been placed on 
administrative leave. According to Dr. Smith, "The director of the Board is responsible for 
ordering investigations. Mr. Coffey failed to order an investigation or take any other action on 
the Colorado complaint. It is incomprehensible that Mr. Coffey and Ms. Manning did not act on 
the Colorado complaint given NECC's past, and their responsibility to investigate complaints. 
Following the outbreak, staff also failed to disclose the existence of Colorado's complaint to 
leadership at 53 Dr. Smith stated that t]here is no evidence at this time that staff 
informed Board of Pharmacy] members about the Colorado issues. We continue to interview all 
Board members as part of our investigation into their handling of this situation and will not 
hesitate to make further changes and personnel actions if we deem them to be 54 
However, it has come to the Committee's attention that as of November 8, 2012, the current 
President of the Board has yet to be interviewed. 

148 E-mail from Pharmacy Inspector, Cob. State Bd. of Pharmacy, to James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of 
Registration in Pharmacy (July 26, 2012, 3:06 PM). 
1d. 
150 E-mail from James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Pharmacy Inspector, Cob. State 
Bd. of Pharmacy (July 27, 2012, 7:33 AM). 
151 

See E-mail from James D. Coffey, Dir., Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy, to Susan Manning, Counsel to 
Mass. Bd. of Registration in Pharmacy et al. (July 27, 2012, 7:34 AM) (forwarding Colorado "Special Report"). 
152 E-mail from Senior Case Review Expert, Denver Dist. Office, FDA, to Supervising Consumer Safety Officer, 
New England Dist. Office, FDA et a!. (May 10, 2011, 4:19 PM). 
153 Press Release, Mass. Dep't of Pub. Health, Statement of Interim Commissioner Dr. Lauren Smith on NECC 
Investigation (Nov. 7, 2012), available at http://www.mass.gov/eohhs/docs/dph/quality/boards/pharmacy/1 21107- 
statement-from-lauren-smith.pdf. 
1d. 



Majority Memorandum for the November 14, 2012, Oversight and Investigations Subcommittee Hearing 
Page 25 

IV. ISSUES 

The following issues will be explored at the hearing: 

• Both State and Federal inspectors documented a number of deficiencies and violations at 
NECC since as early as 2002, many of which are similar to those at issue in the ongoing 
meningitis investigation. Were the FDA's and the Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy's 
enforcement actions appropriate? 

• Why didn't FDA pursue any enforcement actions against the NECC despite having 
emphasized in 2003 the potential for serious public health consequences if the company's 
compounding practices, in particular those relating to sterile products, were not 
improved? 

• Prior to this outbreak, the Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy had investigated at least 
twelve separate complaints relating to NECC and its management. While many of these 
complaints covered NECC's sales and marketing tactics, several were associated with 
serious adverse events and uncovered deficiencies with NECC's compounding 
operations. How was NECC able to maintain its pharmacy license despite repeated 
violations? 

• What did State and Federal authorities do to confirm that sufficient corrective measures 
were taken after these inspections? How did they communicate with each other to ensure 
such responses were adequate to protect the public health? 

V. STAFF CONTACTS 

If you have any questions regarding this hearing, please contact Karen Christian or John 
Stone with the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations at (202) 225-2927. 



MASSACHUSETTS BOARD OF REGISTRATION IN PHARMACY 

Sterile Compounding Pharmacy Information Sheet 

Massachusetts pharmacies that are licensed by the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy (Board) and 
engage in the compounding of sterile products that have completed and submitted a Sterile Compounding 
Pharmacy Attestation of Compliance are required to complete this Information Sheet and return it with the 
requested documents to the Board by 12 Noon on Friday, November 9, 2012. 

FAILURE of any Massachusetts pharmacy that performs sterile compounding to complete and return this 
Information Sheet and other requested information to the Board by 12 Noon on Friday, NOVEMBER 9, 2012 will be 
a ground for discipline of the pharmacy license by the Board as a violation of 247 CMR 10.03(q). 

Please direct any questions regarding this request to 

Name of Massachusetts Pharmacy 
Street Address 
City/Town Zip Code 
Tel. No. Fax No. 

Name of Manager of Record Lic. No. PH____________ 
Signature___________________________________________________ Date_________________ 
E-mail 

1. Hours of operation: Weekdays: Weekends: 

2. Staffing: 

Total No. Pharmacy Staff: Pharmacists: Technicians: Interns:______ 

No. staff preparing sterile products: Pharmacists:_______ Technicians:______ Interns: 

3. Job descriptions for individuals involved with compounding of sterile products (attach) 

4. Competency training documents (attach) 

5. Size of and number of clean rooms: 

6. Number of laminar flow hoods: 

7. List all non-sterile active pharmaceutical ingredients (API) used for sterile compounding: 

8. Describe methods of sterilizing (e.g., filtration, autoclave): - 

9. Describe process of environmental sampling: 

10. Describe process to determine Beyond-Use-Dating (BUD): 

11. List of sterile products compounded (attach) 

Name of Pharmacy: 



12. List of customers (attach) 

I, 

_________________________________ 

(Print Name) ATTEST, under the pains and penalties of perjury, to the 
truthfulness of the information provided herein. 

Signature: Date:___________________ 

Please direct any questions regarding this Pharmacy Information Sheet to 

Please FAX (617 973 0980) OR SCAN a completed and signed 
Information Sheet and other requested information to the Massachusetts Board of Registration Pharmacy 
BY 12 NOON ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2012. Please mail an original signed form AND requested 
information to the Board at the address below: 

Board of Registration in Pharmacy 
ATTN: Sterile Compounding Pharmacy Information Sheet 
239 Causeway Street, th floor 
Boston, MA 02114 

Name of Pharmacy: 



IThri&t Pliarniacy Association 
Supporting Florida Pharmacy Since 1887 

November 13, 2012 

Mr. Mark Whitten 
Executive Director 
Florida Board of Pharmacy 
4052 Bald cypress Way, C-04 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

Re: Pharmacists' Commitment to Patient Safety and Compounding Quality 

Dear Mr. Whitten: 

As a state organization representing pharmacy practitioners in all settings, we offer our 
deepest sympathy and condolences to patients and families affected by the fungal 
meningitis outbreak due to contaminated injectable products. The pharmacy profession 
is dedicated to ensuring patient safety and access to quality medications that meet 
patients' needs. Based on our understanding of this tragedy, the entity involved was not 
engaged in traditional compounding practices specific to particular patients or in-office 
use by a physician that is integral to all aspects of pharmacy practice, but was possibly 
engaged in unregulated, unlicensed drug manufacturing. 

Pharmacists compound medications in response to a prescription from a physician or 
other legally-authorized prescriber to meet patient-specific needs. Under Florida law, 
patients may receive compounded medications when they have a need for a 
customized medication, when a drug shortage or product discontinuation occurs, when 
the needed strength or dosage form is not available from a manufacturer, or when an 
allergen-free version of a medication is needed. Pharmacists provide these 
compounded products to patients under a patient-specific prescription or for in-office 
use by a prescribing practitioner. Pharmacists also compound prescriptions for 
veterinary needs. 

It is not uncommon for a patient who needs a particular medication yet is unable to 
swallow a solid oral dosage form due to the insertion of a nasogastric tube. In these 
cases and many others similar to this there is a need for a compounded form of the 
medication prescribed. Pharmacists can prepare a liquid version of that drug to allow 
for insertion into the tube. This is considered basic compounding. 

We believe that patients must continue to have access to high quality compounded 
medications that are not commercially available from a manufacturer. Pharmacists 
working in all practice settings such as hospitals and health systems, community 
pharmacies, long-term care and assisted-living settings, and even our nation's 
uniformed services must work to meet defined quality standards and to comply with 
state boards of pharmacy regulations in pharmacy sterile and nonsterile compounding 



practices. Importantly, all practice settings and health professionals providing sterile 
compounding should follow defined quality standards. Many of these standards can be 
found published on the Pharmacy Compounding Accreditation Board (PCAB) web site. 
Pharmacies may also be held to accreditation and certification requirements when 
compounding sterile products to further assure quality and compliance. The Florida 
Pharmacy Association at its August 2006 Executive Committee supports the voluntary 
participation of Florida providers to become accredited with PCAB. 

The Florida Pharmacy Association as well as our national pharmacy organizations and 
our colleague state pharmacy associations throughout the country are committed to 
working with Congress; state legislatures; state boards of pharmacy regulating the 
practice of pharmacy; and the Department of Business and Professional Regulation and 
the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA), which regulates pharmaceutical 
manufacturers and distributors, on compounding issues. In addition, we will collaborate 
with physicians, other prescribers, and other key stakeholders to prevent further 
tragedy. 

Florida has one of the most comprehensive regulatory structures governing the practice 
of pharmacy in our country. Florida's rules on sterile compounding clearly prohibit the 
activities leading to the New England tragedy and the Florida Board of Pharmacy holds 
the legal authority to take appropriate action to suspend or revoke the non-resident 
pharmacy permit of NECC. The Florida Pharmacy Association believes Florida should 
hold nonresident pharmacies, such as NECC, to the stringent compliance standards 
established under current Florida compounding law for all Florida-permitted pharmacies. 
The Florida Pharmacy Association further urges the Board to consider recommending 
legislative changes that would require non-resident pharmacy permit holders to have a 
Florida licensed pharmacist manager acting in nonresident pharmacies as is required by 
a number of other states, particular if such out-of-state pharmacy is dispensing 
compounded medications into our State. The pedigree laws that apply to in-state 
permitted pharmacies must more clearly apply to non-resident pharmacy permit holders. 
If a non-resident pharmacy permit holder, such as NECC, is engaged in the 
manufacturing of drugs, the Board of Pharmacy must have the clear authority and the 
resources to take action against such non-resident pharmacy's permit and the 
Department of Business and Regulation must be clearly authorized to require a full 
prescription drug pedigree or any medications dispensed in this state, regardless of 
where the dispensing pharmacy is located. 

Finally, the FPA recommends that the Department of Health invest in resources to train 
our state's inspection team on the complexities of compounding services. We 
understand that resources of the Department are strained with the state struggling to 
balance its budget. Practitioner licensing fees that have in recent years been diverted 
from Medical Quality Assurance trust funds must be restored and used to address 
enforcement, compliance and quality issues. The lack of enforcement in the Northeast 
has shown us that adequate enforcement resources are essential to patient safety. 

We are prepared to be a resource for policymakers and stakeholders to work toward 
identification of a clear delineation between drug manufacturing and traditional 
pharmacy compounding, to ensure that state pharmacy boards, DBPR and the FDA 
have the resources necessary for effective enforcement in areas within their jurisdiction, 



and to find an appropriate, balanced approach to assure public safety and continued 
access to compounded medications. 

The Florida Pharmacy Association is the oldest and largest organization representing 
the profession of pharmacy in Florida. The members include pharmacists with expertise 
in community, institutional, long term care, consulting, managed care, nuclear, 
compounding, infusion therapy, academic and governmental service. The Association 
has networked with over 30 local invited and affiliated pharmacy organizations with 
outreach to most Florida licensed pharmacists. The FPA has advocated for and 
implemented a number of quality improvement and pharmacist patient care initiatives in 
this state and has served the profession since 1887. 

Florida Pharmacy Association is the professional society representing Florida 
pharmacists, united to improve public health and patient care, enhance professional 
development and advocate for the interest of the profession. The Association is 
organized to preserve and advance the practice of pharmacy and to serve the 
professional needs of all pharmacists, pharmacy students, and pharmacy technicians. 

We thank you for this opportunity to allow us to comment on this issue and on behalf of 
the leadership and members of the FPA, I am available for any questions that you may 
have. 

With kindest regards, 

Michael A. Jackson, BPharm 
Executive Vice President and CEO 

Cc: FPA Board of Directors 



United States Senate 
HEALTH, EDUCATION, LABOR, AND PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

The New England Compounding Center and 
the Meningitis Outbreak of 2012: A Failure 

to Address Risk to the Public Health 

Committee Staff Report 

November 15, 2012 



On September 26, 2012, as a result of the rapid work of the Tennessee Department of 
Public Health and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDCP), an outbreak of an 
unusual strain of fungal meningitis was identified. Preservative free methylprednisolone acetate 
(MPA), administered via spinal injection, was quickly identified as a likely source of the 
infections. The MPA was traced back to a compounding pharmacy in Framingham 
Massachusetts, the New England Compounding Pharmacy Inc., doing business as the New 
England Compounding Center (NECC). The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) 
subsequently determined that three separate lots of MPA, totaling over 17,000 doses produced by 
NECC between May 21, 2012 and August 10, 2012, were contaminated with the exserohilum 
rostratum fungus.' 

To date, NECC's failure to produce a sterile and safe product has led to more than 30 
deaths and over 450 serious illnesses requiring treatment with high risk anti-fungal medications. 
The efforts of the CDCP and the Tennessee Department of Public Health allowed public health 
officials in 23 states to rapidly track and begin monitoring the approximately 14,000 possible 
recipients of the contaminated drug. But thousands of people around the country continue to 
wait and see whether they will develop meningitis, joint infections, spinal abscesses, or 
arachnoiditis. Those treated will face the risk of kidney and liver damage from the powerful 
anti-fungal drugs. 

While the quick work of the public health community has led to early identification and 
treatment of many cases of meningitis, and reduced the fatalities resulting from the 
administration of the contaminated MPA, the Committee's investigation demonstrates that this 
crisis should have, and could have, been avoided entirely. 

Since its creation in 1998, inspections of NECC by state, federal, and independent 
investigators have identified and documented profound deficiencies in the company's production 
of sterile drugs. The company has also been cited on multiple occasions for improper use of 
prescription blanks to solicit orders and failure to comply with state regulations requiring patient- 
specific prescriptions for compounded drugs. 

Moreover, the same drug at issue in the current outbreak, NECC-produced MPA, had 
previously been a suspected cause of at least two cases with bacterial meningitis-like symptoms. 
These reports triggered an FDA inspection of the facility ten years prior to the current outbreak, 
in August 2002. 

While the FDA sampling of NECC-produced MPA proved sterile at the time, other MPA 
samples were found to contain bacteria." As an FDA employee stated in a power point 
presentation to the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy (Board) at the time, 
"Sterilization techniques and aseptic practices continue to raise questions, despite no positive 
(nonsterile) results from latest samples. Absence of evidence is not evidence of 1 
'Testing of the third lot is ongoing. 
"An outbreak of fungal meningitis caused by MPA compounded by a South Carolina pharmacy also 
occurred in mid-2002. 

1 



Four years later in 2006, an independent evaluator reported to NECC manager and co- 
owner Barry Cadden that major areas of concern included "inadequate and incomplete 
documentation," that "end product testing is often performed on 'stock solutions' and not the end 
product that is required," "process controls including validation of sterilization cycles and media 
fills are inadequate," and "in many cases the procedures are not in strict accordance with USP 
795/797" as required by Massachusetts state 2 

In view of these repeated concerns with regard to the ability of NECC to safely produce 
compound drugs, it is difficult to understand why definitive action was never taken to either 
revoke its license or, at a minimum, closely monitor the company's operations. Instead, the 
company was allowed to grow and expand operations, ultimately holding licenses to ship drugs 
to at least 45 states. The same owners were subsequently permitted to open the far larger 
Ameridose, which supplied compounded drugs to hospitals around the country. Also, that 
company now has been found to lack adequate procedures to ensure that the compounds 
produced are safe, uniform or sterile. 

This report is based on information obtained in the course of the Committee's 
investigation. It is intended to recount the known history of NECC, its related companies and 
their interactions with federal and state regulators as of November 15, 2012 to better understand 
the events leading to the current public health crisis. 

The New Compounding Company 

NECC was created in 1998 by the Conigliaro family. Three Conigliaro siblings and their 
spouses own the company: Douglas and Carla Conigliaro; Barry Cadden and Lisa Conigliaro 
Cadden; and Gregory Conigliaro. Ownership and management of the company have remained 
essentially unchanged since 1998. Pharmacists Barry Cadden and Lisa Conigliaro Cadden own 
25 percent of the company, Carla Conigliaro owns 65 percent, and Gregory Conigliaro owns 10 
percent. Gregory Conigliaro also owns a neighboring recycling business. Barry Cadden was in 
charge of operations and significant amounts of the actual compounding at NECC during the 
entire period of operations. The three siblings and spouses also own Ameridose and Alaunus, 
two companies created in 2006, in similar proportions. 

NECC was granted a special pharmacy license by the Board in June 1998. That license 
allowed the company to produce compounded pharmaceutical products without operating a full- 
service pharmacy, but still subject to the state requirement that the company to have an 
individual patient prescription for each dose compounded. Massachusetts also adopted United 
States Pharmacopeia Standard <797>, which sets forth standards for compounding pharmacies 
including requirements for clean facilities, specific training for operators, and air quality 3 

The first enforcement action against NECC began just 10 months after issuance of the 
license. In April of 1999, the Board filed a complaint against NECC for including blank 
prescriptions in solicitations to practitioners, a practice that violated state law. Six months later, 
in November of 1999, the Board resolved the complaint by issuing a warning to NECC in a 
private non-disciplinary advisory 4 

2 





additional staff. Further, NECC ' s manager stated his intent to expand sales to all 50 states, up 
from the 13 states in which it was then 17 

FDA tested unused vials of the MPA collected from the location of the adverse event 
report, and found that 5 of the 16 vials were contaminated with bacteria. The FDA also tested 
other vials obtained during inspections of NECC and found problems with super potent MPA 
and sub-potent betamethasone 18 Investigators again documented the use of 
procedures insufficient to ensure safe compounding. Those concerns included a "lack of 
documentation to verify that the autoclave itself is maintained and calibrated to perform its 
intended function," as well as a concern regarding a lack of safe procedures to ensure that "the 
transfer of bulk drug product and equipment from the autoclave.., to another room ... is not 
introducing contamination into the finished 19 The FDA's inspectors concluded, 
"Sample results revealed that the firm has sterility and potency issues with injectable steroid 
suspensions (betamethasone repository USP and methylprednisolone acetate ° 

In April 2002, prior to these inspections, the United States Supreme Court in Thompson 
v. Western States Medical Center ruled that section 503A of the Food Drug and Cosmetics Act 
included an impermissible restriction on commercial speech. The Supreme Court did not address 
provisions that clarified FDA's authority to regulate certain compound pharmacies, which the 
lower court held was not severable from the unconstitutional commercial speech restrictions. 
While NECC would likely have been subject to FDA regulation pursuant to section 503A of the 
Food Drug and Cosmetics Act, FDA's authority with regard to NECC under 503A was unclear 
after Western States, although FDA's general authority against unapproved new drugs, 
misbranded, or adulterated product was not in dispute. Despite the ambiguity regarding 503A, in 
May 2002 the FDA issued guidance which reasserted its authority to inspect compounding 
pharmacies and provided a non-exhaustive list of factors that the agency would consider in 
determining whether to take enforcement action when the scope and nature of a 
activities raise the kind of concerns ordinarily associated with drug manufacturing. 

In this case, FDA took the position that the Board was better situated to take action 
against NECC. An FDA memo documenting a February 5, 2003, meeting between the FDA and 
the staff of the Board states that "a discussion was held to determine if NECC should be 
considered a manufacturer or a compounder" and that "current findings supported a 
compounding 21 The memo concludes: 

Mr. Elder from FDA] concluded the meeting by summarizing the discussions and 
emphasizing the potential for serious public health consequences 's 
compounding practices, in particular those relating to sterile products are not 
improved. The point was made that so long as a pharmacy's operations fall within the 
scope of the practice of pharmacy. . .FDA will generally defer to state authorities for 
regulatory oversight. In such cases FDA will seek to engage cooperative efforts aimed at 
achieving regulatory compliance and ensuring the safety and quality of compounded 22 
The FDA then officially stated in the NECC Inspection Report issued February 10, 2003, 

R]eferral to Massachusetts State Board of Pharmacy. Recommend firm be prohibited from 
manufacturing until they can demonstrate ability to make product reproducibly and dependably. 

4 



If state is unwilling to take action, recommend firm be enjoined for Good Manufacturing 
Practices] 23 

Despite the formal recommendation that the state take action, it is unclear whether the 
Board took any additional action for the next year." It also does not appear that FDA conducted 
any follow-up to verify whether Massachusetts' response was sufficient to protect public health 
and safety. 

Finally, on February 20, 2004, the Board staff conducted a compliance inspection and 
noted that NECC had taken corrective actions for the safety concerns identified in 2002 and 
2003.24 Nonetheless, the Board's staff recommended a public reprimand of NECC for its prior 25 

On September 21, 2004, more than two years after the first reported cases of meningitis 
and other adverse events, and apparently acting on the staff recommendation, the Board voted to 
seek a public censure and probation for NECC's misconduct leading to the As was 
the Board's custom, they sent a consent decree to NECC that, if agreed to, would impose the 
relevant discipline and monitoring requirements for a three-year 27 The Board's staff 
transmitted its proposed consent decree to NECC on October 4, 2004.28 

NECC did not agree to the proposed consent decree. NECC wrote to the Board asking it 
to instead consider non-public disciplinary action, to better protect NECC's business 29 
Counsel for NECC wrote: "once disclosed, the reprimand will surely result in 
inquiries/investigations in other] jurisdictions. Regardless of the derivative actions taken, the 
attendant legal and administrative costs will be 30 The Board voted in November of 
2004 to decline NECC's request for modifications to the consent 31 Following that action 
by the Board, Committee interviews with Board staff suggest that the consent decree was 
referred for formal action to prosecuting attorneys within the Massachusetts Department of 
Public 32 

For over a year, the record shows no formal order was filed and no hearing was held. 
Instead, it appears that attorneys for the Department of Public Health negotiated a modified 
consent agreement approved by the Board with an effective date of January 10, The 
revised consent decree required that NECC submit to two inspections over a six-month period by 
a third-party evaluator, as well as a series of written assurances that recommended improvements 
had been made, in exchange for a suspended period of non-public 34 The agreement 

'V FDA's investigation report also notes that Mr. Cadden, the manager of NECC, was serving on a 
committee for the state of Massachusetts, created to revise state regulations controlling compounding 
pharmacies. (FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and 
Director of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., February 10, 2003.) The 
committee's work, however, became moot after the release of USP 797, which then was adopted by 
Massachusetts. 247 CMR 9.0 1(3) 
V Between the Board staff report recommending censure and the Board vote to issue the consent decree, 
pharmacist Sophia Pasedis was appointed to the eleven-member Board. Ms. Pasedis appears to have been 
an employee of NECC in some capacity at the time of her appointment, and thus recused herself from the 
Board consideration of the consent decree. Ms. Pasedis is currently a manager of the Conigliaros' other 
drug company, Ameridose. 

5 



was referred to as "non-disciplinary" and was "not reported to the National Association of State 
Boards of Pharmacy or other outside report 35 

Thus, almost four years after the two series of adverse events, including hospitalizations, 
likely caused by MPA, and three years after the FDA had stressed "the potential for serious 
public health consequences if NECC's compounding practices, in particular those relating to 
specific sterile products are not 36 the Board merely required NECC to hire an outside 
monitor, and made no mention of suspension or revocation of NECC's license. 

PSI Monitoring 

Pursuant to the revised consent decree, a third-party auditor, Pharmacy Support, Inc. 
(PSI) was selected to evaluate NECC's compliance with United States Pharmacopeia Standard 
797, which the Board had recently adopted as the governing standard for 37 PSI 
inspected NECC in January 2006 and noted multiple concerns, including sterility concerns. 
Among them, PSI noted a range of fundamental problems, including: 

• NECC had "no requirements for donning proper attire or hand washing" when 
compounding medicines; 

• "Mixing instructions are not specific and do not always indicate time and temperature;" 
• "No quality control procedures are defined;" 
• "Non-sterile 70% IPA is used to sanitize;" 
• "Beard covers not worn;" 
• "Hairnets and beard covers were not worn properly;" 
• "Environmental monitoring procedures are inadequate;" 
• "Calibrations are not performed properly;" 
• "Floors in the unclassified/hybrid buffer area have not been sanitized in 3 months of use;" 
• Beyond use dates] assigned incorrectly;" 
• "There are no written procedures for receipt, storage, and accountability of controlled 

substances;" 
• Standard Operating Procedures] are inadequate or not followed;" 
• "Complaint forms were not available for some complaints logged in the complaint log;" 
• "Most sections of complaint forms are not complete;" 
• "Lot numbers are not assigned appropriately;" 
• "4 out of 8 gloves observed had holes while CSP was compounded;" and 
• Dry heat "sterilization equipment has not been 38 

NECC took significant corrective measures, including replacing deficient equipment, 
conducting several training sessions for staff, and adopting a wide range of new standard 
operating 39 PSI submitted a final report on April 7, 2006, stating that NECC was 
largely compliant with pharmaceutical In April and May, the Board received two 

Vi Six days later, at the end of an 8-week jury trial and three-year indictment, both PSI's CEO and Chief 
Compliance Officer were criminally convicted on 19 counts including fraud, mail fraud, and a violation 
of the Food and Drug Control Act. US v. Caputo, No. 03 CR 0126 (N.D. Ill. Oct 16, 2003). It is unclear 
how PSI was selected as the Massachusetts Board of Pharmacy has been unable to or produce 
documents discussing the selection of PSI in detail. Documents do show that PSI submitted a proposal to 

6 



more cursory letters from NECC assuring compliance with its remaining open 41 On June 
2, 2006, the Board informed NECC that it had fulfilled the requirements of its consent decree 
and that it considered the matter 42 

Additional NECC Complaints 

At the time the Board acted to send the initial consent decree to NECC, it also acted to 
resolve three additional complaints against NECC in September Despite ongoing 
investigations relating to serious adverse events, the Board issued three non-disciplinary private 
advisory letters to NECC resolving complaints submitted during the prior two years from 
practitioners in South Dakota, Texas, and 44 While the advisory letters fail to spell 
out the specifics of the complaints, and the original complaints have not been reviewed by the 
Committee to date, it appears that NECC may have been soliciting bulk orders rather than 
patient-specific prescriptions, conduct that NECC was initially reprimanded for in 1999. A 
Board inspection report from around that time specifically notes that NECC "continues to reduce 
to writing orders on bulk purchase order forms and not on the approved prescription blanks. An 
issue previously addressed with Mr. 45 

Additionally, in April 2004, five months before issuance of the advisory letters, the Board 
received a new complaint from a practitioner regarding the safety of NECC compounded triple 
anesthetic cream. The complaint states "My second concern is that redacted] related to the 
purchasing technician that he would need a prescription for the product and that we could use the 
name of a staff member if we wanted to. He said 'other' institutions have used a nurses 
name. . . .He assured her that it was legal. He indicated that after we received the product it was 
up to us how we used it and whom it was administered 46 It appears that this complaint 
triggered a Board inspection on November 2004. When questioned about the use of false names, 
Cadden responded "a review of the same documentation provided to you does show what would 
appear to be incorrect or repetitive names being provided by several of our prescribing 47 Yet the Board staff again recommended issuance of yet another non-disciplinary 
advisory letter dismissing this complaint. 

On November 7, 2012, Department of Public Health officials informed the Committee 
that a July 2012 complaint against NECC, from the Colorado Board, for producing drugs in the 
absence of a patient-specific prescription had been discovered in the email of the Board's 
Executive Director. The complaint, which was received while the contaminated lots of MPA 
were still being produced by NECC, provided clear photographic evidence that NECC was 
shipping products in the absence of patient-specific 48 Further, Colorado had issued 
a cease and desist order to NECC in 2011 regarding this 49 Board staff never acted on 
the July 2012 complaint, and it is unclear that the Board itself was aware of the 

While Massachusetts state law requires that a compounding pharmacy possess a patient- 
specific prescription before preparing a compound drug, it appears that NECC has been 

the Massachusetts Board and the prosecutor negotiating the consent agreement provided contact 
information to NECC's counsel. i The Board also informed the Committee that it had terminated the Executive Director and placed the 
Board's Counsel on administrative leave as a result of this discovery. 

7 



consistently preparing and shipping batch products either in the absence of a prescription or to 
false prescription recipients since 1998. No regulatory entity appears to have undertaken a 
serious investigation of this ongoing practice, and the Board instead routinely dismissed and/or 
failed to act upon these repeated complaints. 

Additional FDA Action 

Two days after the Board finally voted to issue the consent decree in September 2004, the 
FDA and the Board returned to NECC, this time pursuant to a complaint regarding the 
company's improper production of an injectable dye used in ophthalmic procedures, Trypan ° After Barry Cadden initially denied that any Trypan Blue was in stock, FDA inspectors 
located 189 vials of the product. Trypan Blue is commercially available and should not be 51 

This inspection led to the issuance of a December 4, 2006 FDA Warning Letter to NECC. 
The Warning Letter details issues including: the sale of compounded drugs without a patient- 
specific prescription; compounding copies of commercially-available drugs; selling misbranded 
compounding drugs; and compounding standardized non-approved drugs, with associated public 
health risks, on a large scale. It specifically notes that NECC "has reportedly told physicians' 
offices that using a staff member name on a prescription would 52 

While the FDA Warning Letter seeks corrective action within 15 days and threatens that 
failure to correct could result in further regulatory action including seizure or injunction, it does 
not appear that any further action was contemplated or that any efforts to ensure that corrective 
action were sought by the agency. Moreover, FDA chose to issue this Warning Letter without 
having learned from the Board what, if any, disciplinary actions had been taken in response to 
the inspections from October 2002-February In January 2007 NECC responded to the 
Warning Letter, and in October 2008 the FDA re-asserted its authority to take "enforcement 
action, including seizure of the firm's products and/or an injunction against the firm and its 
principals" if violations noted in the Warning Letter were not corrected. The FDA also stated 
that i]n a future inspection, we will ... verify that your firm's compounding practices are 
consistent with the policy articulated in the Compliance Policy 54 This response 
came two years from the date of's initial Warning Letter and four years from the date of the 
relevant inspection. FDA took no further action until the recent outbreak. 

Further, a May 2011 email exchange shows that FDA staff, including the signatory to the 
October 2008 letter re-asserting FDA inspection authority, received a copy of a Colorado Cease 
and Desist Order issued to NECC in 2011 as the result of distribution of non-patient specific 
compounded drugs to hospitals in the Denver area. FDA staff apparently did not share the Cease 
and Desist order with the Massachusetts Board, or suggest that the Colorado Board do so until 
Colorado inspectors again discovered NECC stock compound drugs in another Colorado hospital 
in July 

Inspection Findings Subsequent to the Outbreak 

Unfortunately the long history of concerns was borne out in inspections by FDA and the 
Board following the 2012 fungal meningitis outbreak. The Massachusetts Board began a series 

8 



of inspections of NECC on September 26, 2012. The Board and/or the FDA continued 
inspecting NECC from that date until October 26, 2012. The findings demonstrate a basic lack 
of compliance with USP <797> or with safe compounding as evidenced most clearly by the fact 
that v]isible black particulate matter was seen in several recalled sealed vials of 
Methylprednisolone 56 Perhaps most critically, the FDA inspection found that NECC's 
environmental monitoring system documented 61 instances between January and August 2012 
when either bacteria or mold was detected in concentrations exceeding action-level 57 

The inspection reports found that while sterility testing conducted on the contaminated 
lots did not reveal unacceptably high levels of endotoxins, the sample provided was insufficient 
relative to the batch size. In fact when FDA sampled 50 vials of returned MPA it determined all 
fifty were contaminated with microbial growth despite the fact that sterility tests on one sample 
from the same lot in August 2012 has proven 58 The FDA and Board inspections 
unsurprisingly again document a basic lack of procedure to ensure sterile products were being 
compounded safely including: 

• Inspectors observed "greenish yellow discoloration" lining one of two autoclaves used to 
sterilize various components and 59 

• Inspectors observed "yellow residue lining the rear return of Weigh Station 2 Hood and 
greenish residue lining the rear return of Weigh Station 3 Hood.. .used to weigh active 
ingredients and other raw materials;" 60 

• "Residual powder was visually observed within the powder] hood during inspection;" 

• Tacky] mats, which are used to trap dirt, dust, and other potential contaminants from 
shoes prior to clean room entry.. .were visibly soiled with assorted 61 and 

• "A leaking boiler adjacent to the requisite clean room created an environment susceptible 
to contaminant 62 

The inspections also documented a continued disregard for the requirements of a patient-specific 
prescription for each compounded product. The state's preliminary investigation report noted: 
"NECC distributed large batches of compounded sterile products directly to facilities apparently 
for general use rather than requiring a prescription for an individual patient." 

Ameridose 

One month after the terms of NECC's 2006 consent decree were deemed satisfied, the 
Board approved a license for a new company, Ameridose, owned by the Conigliaro ' Viii 

Massachusetts Board Member Sophia Pasedis has been a manager of record for the 64 
According to media reports, Douglas Conigliaro, although not listed as an owner or manager, 
plays a significant role at 65 
Viii The ownership distribution is essentially the same with Carla Conigliaro owning 65 percent, Barry and 
Lisa Cadden owning 25 percent and Gregory Conigliaro owning 10 percent. (11-9-12 HELP Committee 
staff interview with NECC attorneys.) 

9 



Ameridose is also a sterile compounding company, but because it produces batch drugs 
for hospitals rather than patient-specific prescriptions, it is registered as a manufacturer with the 
FDA as well as with the Massachusetts 66 The company does not manufacture any FDA 
approved product but rather is exclusively a large-scale compounder. 

Until the outbreak, Ameridose contracted with Novation, the largest group purchasing 
organization in the country. Thus, Ameridose products were available to Novation's 3,000 
hospital members as well as 22,000 other providers and facilities. Despite the history of 
problems with NECC and the joint ownership of the two companies, neither the licensure of 
Ameridose nor the large scale of its operations appears to have raised any concerns amongst the 
Board or the Board staff. Documents suggest that Ameridose was subject to routine pre- 
announced inspections by the Board in 2008 and 2011 

However, the FDA had serious concerns with Ameridose. The FDA inspected the 
company in 2008 and found serious problems with the company's operations. Despite the large 
scale of Ameridose's operations even in 2008, investigators documented that products were 
shipped immediately without waiting for the results of sterility testing, that testing for potency 
and dose uniformity is not routinely performed and procedures were insufficient, and that the 
company was generally not in compliance with the requirements of USP 797 as required by 
Massachusetts law. As an example, management could not locate test results for 3 of 17 active 
ingredients inspected. Results of sampling tests taken at the August 2008 inspection returned a 
finding of superpotent Oxytocin, resulting in a recall of the product and an additional inspection 
in September 2008.68 FDA staff placed Ameridose on the work plan for high risk facilities and 
recommended that a warning letter be issued to the company although no such letter was actually 69 

While Ameridose was also the subject of at least 9 reports to the FDA of adverse events, 
faulty products, or medication errors, it is unclear that any of these triggered an inspection or 70 Following NECC's identification as the source of the fungal meningitis, the 
Board secured a temporary stop of Ameridose operations, though the company continues to hold 
a valid license. After the FDA began inspections on October 31, 2012, Ameridose issued a 
voluntary recall of all 71 

On November 12, 2012, the FDA issued a preliminary inspection report for Ameridose, 
finding startlingly similar problems to those they found NECC. Although the FDA has not 
reported any findings of contaminated drugs from Ameridose, the agency's preliminary findings 
"raised concerns about a lack of sterility assurance for products produced at and distributed by 
this 72 

The FDA's inspection found that, like at NECC, there were clear problems with ensuring 
that drugs were sterile, or that doses were uniform. The FDA found that batches of drug product 
were not tested to ensure sterility, and that procedures were not established, written, or followed 
to prevent microbiological contamination of sterile drug products. What procedures were 
available did not include adequate validation of sterilization. The report also notes that the 
company failed to write or follow procedures detailing other aspects of their 73 

10 



Moreover, the FDA found that testing of Ameridose's product did not include appropriate 
laboratory determination of conformance to the identity and strength of each active ingredient. 
And there were no written procedures for production and process controls to assure that the drug 
products had the identity, strength, quality and purity they purported to 74 

Additionally, the FDA found that the buildings were not in good repair, that equipment 
and utensils were not cleaned, maintained, and sanitized at appropriate intervals to prevent 
contamination. The company further lacked suitable procedures to facilitate cleaning and 
maintenance, lacked equipment for adequate control over air pressure, and were infested with 75 
Conclusion 

Given the history of NECC, the fact that the company produced and shipped a 
contaminated product that has led to 32 deaths and 461 infections to date is not a surprise. The 
surprise is that they were allowed to continue to engage in drug compounding for over a decade 
with this record. 

Both federal and state regulators were well aware that NECC and its owners posed a risk 
to the public health. Both had documented that the company routinely flouted requirements that 
it compound products only when a patient specific prescription was received, compounded 
unapproved and commercially available products, potentially destroyed documents and samples 
relevant to adverse events, and most critically, repeatedly failed to demonstrate that the company 
could safely compound sterile products. There were a number of authorities and mechanisms for 
both federal and state regulators to address this issue, but bureaucratic inertia appears to be what 
allowed a bad actor to repeatedly risk public health. 

The Committee will continue its investigation to determine how this tragic failure of 
oversight occurred, and how it can best be prevented in the future. 

1 FDA Internal Memorandum, February 24, 2003, re: February 5, 2003 Meeting with Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy /Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), P. 10 

of Attachment 1. 
2 Letter from Pharmacy Support, Inc., to New England Compounding Center, January 30, 2006, and 
enclosure: Compounding Sterile and Non Sterile Preparations Observations and Recommendations Final 
Report. 

247 CMR 9.0 1(3). 
Committee staff interview with Board inspectors 11/9/12. 
Senate HELP Committee staff interviews of Massachusetts Department of Public Health staff, October 

and November, 2012. 
FDA Investigative Report, re: FACTS 298826, New England Compounding Pharmacy Inc. El 4/9, 4/10, 

4/16/02; FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Bany Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and 
Director of Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., April 16, 2002. 

FDA Investigative Report, re: FACTS 298826, New England Compounding Pharmacy Inc. El 4/9, 4/10, 
4/16/02. 
8 Id 

FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and Director of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., April 16, 2002, p. 4. 

11 



'°Id. at4. 
Id. at4. 

12 Id. at 7. 
13 Id. at 7. 
14 Id. at 8. 
15 FDA Establishment Inspection Report and Continuation Sheet, re: FACTS 332851, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy Inc., El Start: 10/24/02, El End: 2/10/03; FDA Inspectional Observations, Form 
FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and Director of Pharmacy, New England Compounding 
Pharmacy, Inc., February 10, 2003, p. 5. 
16 FDA Establishment Inspection Report and Continuation Sheet, re: FACTS 332851, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy Inc., El Start: 10/24/02, El End: 2/10/03, pp. 4-5. 
17 Id. 
18 Id. 
19 FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, R. Ph, Owner and Director of 
Pharmacy, New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., February 10, 2003, p. 1. 

1d. at2. 
21 FDA Internal Memorandum, February 24, 2003, re: February 5, 2003 Meeting with Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy /Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), p. 2. 
22 Id. at 3-4. 
23 FDA Establishment Inspection Report, re: FACTS 332851, New England Compounding Pharmacy 
Inc., El Start: 10/24/02, El End: 2/10/03, p. 1. 
24 Massachusetts Department of Public Health Division of Health Professions Licensure, Investigation 
Report, Re: New England Compounding Center, DS 03 055, and Barry Cadden, PH 03 066, March 4, 
2004, p. 9. 
25 Id. at 9. 
26 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Pharmacy Board Meeting Minutes: Tuesday, 
September 21, 2004, p. 9. 
27 Letter from the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy to New England Compounding 
Center, re: Docket Number DS-03-055/PH-03-066/ New England Compounding Center (Permit #2848) 
and Barry Cadden, R.Ph., License No. 21239, October 4, 2004; Massachusetts Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, Consent Agreement re: Docket No. DS-03-055, PH-03-066. 
28 Id. 
29 Letter from Paul Cirel, counsel for New England Compounding Center, to Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, re: Docket Number DS-03-055/PH-03-066/ New England Compounding Center (Permit 
#2848) and Barry Cadden, R.Ph., License No. 21239, November 11, 2004. 
1d. at4. 
31 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Pharmacy Board Meeting Minutes: Tuesday, 
November 23, 2004, . 
32 Senate HELP Committee staff interviews of Massachusetts Department of Public Health staff, October 
and November, 2012. 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Consent Agreement re: Docket No. DS-03-055, PH- 
03-066, DS-05-040, January 10, 2006. 

Id. 
Id. at 1. 

36 FDA Internal Memorandum, February 24, 2003, re: February 5, 2003 Meeting with Massachusetts 
Board of Pharmacy /Division of Professional Licensure (239 Causeway Street, Boston, MA 02114), p. 2. 

Letter from Pharmacy Support, Inc., to New England Compounding Center, January 30, 2006, and 
enclosure: Compounding Sterile and Non Sterile Preparations Observations and Recommendations Final 
Report. 
38 Id. 

12 



Pharmacy Support, Inc., Final Report USP <795>/< 797> Implementation New England Compounding 
Center Framingham, Ma, April 7, 2006. 
40 Id. 
41 Letters between Board and NECC, April 12, 2006, April 19, 2006, May 10, 2006, and May 22, 2006. 
42 Letter from MA Board to NECC, June 2, 2006. 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Pharmacy Board Meeting Minutes: Tuesday, 
September 21, 2004. 

Letter from the Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy to New England Compounding 
Center, re: In the matter ofDS-03-038 and PH-03-042 New England Compounding Center (Permit 
#2848), September 30, 2004; Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Advisory Letter re: 
Docket No. DS-03-036, PH-03-042, September 30, 2004; Letter from the Massachusetts Board of 
Registration in Pharmacy to New England Compounding Center, re: In the matter of DS-03-060 and PH- 
03-0 70 New England Compounding Center (Permit #2848), September 30, 2004; Massachusetts Board 
of Registration in Pharmacy, Advisory Letter re: Docket No. DS-03-060, PH-03-070, September 30, 2004; 
Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, Advisory Letter re: Docket No. DS-04-062, PH-04- 
161, September 30, 2004. 

Massachusetts Department of Public Health Division of Health Professions Licensure, Investigation 
Report, Re: New England Compounding Center, DS 03 055, and Barry Cadden, PH 03 066, March 4, 
2004 at 7. 
46 Email from redacted] to Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy, re: New England 
Compounding Center Activity in the State of Wisconsin, April 27, 2004. 

Massachusetts Department of Public Health Division of Health Professions Licensure, Investigation 
Report, Re: New England Compounding Center, DS 05 040, reviewed by Board Members on November 
23, 2004. 
48 E-mail from Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies to Massachusetts Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, re: New England Compounding Center, July 26, 2012; Colorado State Board of Pharmacy, 
Special Report, re: New Egland Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. (WHO 7832), July 20, 2012. 

Id. 
FDA Internal Memorandum, Re: Inspection/Investigation of New England Compounding Center, 

January26, 2005. 
Id. at2. 
52 FDA Warning Letter to NECC, Dec 4, 2006. 

FDA Internal Memorandum, Re: Inspection/Investigation of New England Compounding Center, 
January 26, 2005 at 4. 

Letter from FDA to NECC, Oct 31, 2008. 
E-mails between Colorado Board of Pharmacy and FDA, May 10, 2011 and July 16, 2012; Colorado 

State Board of Pharmacy, Special Report, re: New England Compounding Pharmacy, Inc. (WHO 7832), 
July 20, 2012. 
56 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report, NECC Preliminary Investigation Findings, 
October 23, 2012, at 4. 

FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, Owner, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., d/b/a/ New England Compounding Center, October 26, 2012. 
58 FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Barry Cadden, Owner, New England 
Compounding Pharmacy, Inc., d/b/a/ New England Compounding Center, October 26, 2012. 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report, NECC Preliminary Investigation Findings, 
October 23, 2012 at 1. 
60 Id. at 7. 
61 Massachusetts Board of Registration in Pharmacy Report, NECC Preliminary Investigation Findings, 
October 23, 2012 at 4. 
62 Id. at 5. 

13 



Ameridose, LLC, Application for a New Store 50 Fountain Street, 2006. 
MId 

Abby Goodnough et. al., "Spotlight Put on Founders of Drug Firm in Outbreak," New York Times, 
October 24, 2012, http://www.nytimes.com/2012/1 0/25/health/with-meningitis-outbreak-a-spotlight-on- 
family-behind-compounding-pharmacy.html?pagewanted=all (accessed November 14, 2012). 
66 

See, e.g. FDA Establishment Inspection Report, Ameridose, LLC, January 16, 2008, p. 1; Ameridose, 
LLC, Application for a New Store 50 Fountain Street, 2006. 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Division of Health Professions Licensure, Inspection Report, 
11/19/08; The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Division of Health Professions Licensure, Inspection 
Report, 11/7/11. 
68 FDA Establishment Inspection Report, Ameridose, LLC, El Start: 09/17/2008, El End: 09/18/2008. 

FDA Establishment Inspection Report, Ameridose, LLC, August 22, 2008, p. 1. 
70 FDA, FAERS search results for suspect drugs labeled as Ameridose, New England Compounding 
Center orAlaunus, Reports initially received by FDA from 1/1/02 to 9/25/12, provided to Committee on 
November 8, 2012; See also, Letter from Wiley Rein, LLP to Massachusetts Board of Registration in 
Pharmacy, re: Complaint Against Ameridose LLCfor Unlawful Manufacturing and Distribution of Pre- 
Mixed Nicardipine Injection Products, June 30, 2010 (the resulting investigation was administratively 
closed). 
71 FDA Press release: FDA reports voluntary recall of all Ameridose drug products, October 31, 2012, 
http://www.fda. gov/NewsEvents/Newsroom/PressAnnouncements/ucm3263 61 , (accessed November 
14, 2012). 
72 Id. 

FDA Inspectional Observations, Form FDA483, issued to Gary Conigliaro, Vice President and General 
Manager, Ameridose, LLC, November 9, 2012. 

Id. 
Id. 

14 


	Bookmarks
	Tuesday, February 11, 2014 - 1:00p.m.
	TAB 1: REPORTS
	A.  Chair's Report - Jeff Mesaros, PharmD, Chair
	1.  2014 Board Member Assignments
	i.  2013 Board Member Assignments

	2.  2014 Association Meeting Assignments
	i.  2013 Association Meeting Assignments


	B.  Acting Executive Director's Report - Tammy Collins
	1.  Compounding Rules Committee Report - Michele Weizer, PharmD
	2.  Update on Executive Director Position
	3.  2014 Legislative Update Summary (Bills known to date)
	4.  Update on the Sterile Compounding Permit
	5.  Approval of MAD-ID CE Course and Retroactive Approval for CE Participants - Dr. Michele Weizer
	Meeting Notice
	MAD-ID CE Course


	C.  Attorney General's Report - David Flynn, Assistant Attorney General
	1.  Rules Report - Lynette Norr, Assistant Attorney General
	2.  Requests for Declaratory Statements
	BTV Pharmacy
	Meeting Notice
	BTV Pharmacy

	Florida Hospital Home Infusion, LLP
	Meeting Notice
	Florida Hospital Home Infusion, LLP


	3.  Request for Variance of Waivers
	Meeting Notice
	TeamCare Pharmacy Service


	D.  Prosecution Services Report - Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counsel
	E.  Chief Investigative Services Report - Mark Whitten & Chris Ferguson

	TAB 2: BUSINESS - Jeff Mesaros, PharmD, Chair
	A.  Request for Reduction of Hours - Debra Glass, BPharm
	Meeting Notice
	United Care Pharmacy, LLC

	B.  NABP Verified Pharmacy Program - Scotti Russell, R.Ph.
	C.  Ratification of Issued Licenses/Certificates & Staffing Ratios
	1.  Pharmacist (Licensure)(Client 2201) - 147
	2.  Pharmacist (Exam Eligibility)(Client 2201) - 77
	3.  Pharmacist Intern (Client 2202) - 150
	4.  Registered Pharmacy Technician (Client 2208) - 790
	5.  Consultant Pharmacist (2203) - 16
	6.  Nuclear Pharmacist (2204) - 0
	7.  Pharmacy/Facilities (2205) - 158
	8.  Registered Pharmacy Technician Ratios (2:1 or 3:1) - 109
	9.  Pharmacy Technician Training Program (Client 2209) - 36
	10.  CE Providers - 7
	11.  CE Courses - 9
	12.  CE Individual Request (Approved) - 0
	13.  CE Individual Request (Denied) - 2

	D.  Review and Approval of Minutes
	1.  December 3-4, 2014 Minutes



	Wednesday, February 12, 2014 - 9:00a.m.
	TAB 3: RULES COMMITTEE REPORT - Jeff Mesaros, PharmD, Chair
	TAB 4: DISCIPLINARY CASES - Yolonda Green, Assistant General Counsel & Jeff Mesaros, PharmD
	SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS
	A-1 John T. Reading, R.Ph., Case No. 2012-16088 - AGM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Election of Rights
	Board Notification Letter
	Cost Summary Report
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, correct Case Summary & Attachments, page 11-19
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter with attachments pages 20-27
	Exhibit 3 - Letter dated to McDonald, page 28
	Exhibit 4 - Letter dated to Reading providing a corrected Case Summary, pages 29-30
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of previous inspections dated 9/22/09, 10/18/10, and 1/23/12, pages 31-33
	Exhibit 6 - Pictures on CD, pages 34-46
	Exhibit 7 - "Cantonment Wine" Formula, pages 47-48
	Exhibit 8 - Reading's response dated 5/4/13, pages 49-61
	Exhibit 9 - Confidential Index, page 62


	A-2 Enrique Moises Pallares, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-07014 - CAJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary
	Defense Attorney Document dated 10/31/13
	PCP Memorandum
	456 Packet
	Pulled from 10/24/13 PCP, Case No. 2013-07014
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 6-15
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification letter, page 16
	Exhibit 3 - Status 30 Letter, page 17
	Exhibit 4 - Florida Department of State Divisions of Corporations, pages 18-21
	Exhibit 5 - Documentation obtained from Enrique Moises Pallares, Costo Pharmacy (PH 18472), pages 22-40
	Exhibit 6 - Costo Pharmacy (PH 18472) Inspection Reports, pages 41-45
	Exhibit 7 - Documentation obtained from DW, Patient TVW's Mother, pages 46-54
	Exhibit 8 - Letter of Representation and written response from Attorney, Kevin E. Jakab, pages 55-60
	Exhibit 9 - Confidential Index, page 61



	A-3 Michael W. Halfen, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-02905 - MSM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, DOH/MQA complaint and pharmacy inspection forms, pages 6-12
	Exhibit 2 - Notification letter mailed to Halfen with enclosures, pages 13-19
	Exhibit 3 - Pharmacy inspection forms completed on 3/20/12, 1/10/11 and 12/11/09, pages 20-25
	Exhibit 4 - CQI meeting for 1st Quarter 2013, pages 26-27
	Exhibit 5 - Halfen's response received with attachments, pages 28-42


	A-4 William Clero, RPT, Case No. 2013-05745 - MSM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Administrative Complaint
	Cost Summary Report
	Board Notification Letter
	Initial Application for Licensure
	Work Experience Form dated 7/8/10
	Work Experience Form dated 8/10/10
	PCP Memorandum
	Supplemental 1 dated 5/20/13
	Exhibit S1-1 Arrest Records, pages 2-4
	Exhibit S1-2 Booking Records, pages 5-127

	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Uniform Complaint Form, Initiating Documents & Court Documents, pages 4-84
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter, page 85


	A-5 Magdi Mikhail Bishara, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-09121 - SC
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Administrative Complaint
	Supplemental 4 dated 9/9/13
	Exhibit S4-1 Request for Hand Service
	Exhibit S4-2 Order of Emergency Restriction of License
	Exhibit S4-3 Affidavit of Service

	Supplemental 4 dated 7/8/13
	Exhibit S4-1 PSU Request Form, page 2
	Exhibit S4-2 Hand-written confirmation of service from Attorney Sebek, page 3
	Exhibit S4-3 Affidavit of Service, page 4

	Supplemental 3 dated 7/22/13
	Exhibit S3-1 PSU Request Form
	Exhibit S3-2 Order Compelling Examination
	Exhibit S3-3 Affidavit of Service

	Supplemental 2 dated 7/2/13
	Exhibit S2-1 Independent Psychiatric Evaluation dated 7/25/13 & Curriculum Vitae

	Supplemental 1 dated 6/24/13
	Exhibit S1-1 Photocopies of prescription that Respondent wrote to himself

	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 6-8
	Exhibit 2 - Notification letter, pages 9-12
	Exhibit 3 - Pinellas County Sheriff's Office Subject Charge Report, pages 13-14
	Exhibit 4 - Pinellas Case Progress Docket, page 15-16
	Exhibit 5 - Clearwater Police Report #CW 13-66781, pages 17-41
	Exhibit 6 - PRN response - not known to PRN, page 42
	Exhibit 7 - Letter of Representation from Attorney Richard Sebek, page 43
	Exhibit 8 - Sworn statement from Dr. Nader Said, page 44
	Exhibit 9 - Pharmacy Records. pages 45-50

	Additional Information from Investigations
	Mental and Physical Evaluation
	CV of Evaluator
	CV of Respondent
	Election of Rights
	PCP Memorandum
	Order of Emergency Restriction of License
	Cost Summary Report

	A-6 Praven Ananthula, R.Ph., Case No. 2012-12301 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary Report
	PCP Memorandum
	456 Packet
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 5-16
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification letter and attachments, pages 17-30
	Exhibit 3 - Source Notification letter, page 31
	Exhibit 4 - Letter of Representation from Attorney Indest, pages 32-37
	Exhibit 5 - Subject Notification letters and Attachments sent to Ananthula's Attorney, George Indest, III, pages 38-67
	Exhibit 6 - Letter Directed to the Records Custodian for Pamela Warren, MS, PA requesting patient G.M. from Warren's Office, pages 68
	Exhibit 7 - Prescriptions for G.M. from Warren's office, pages, 69-72
	Exhibit 8 - Letter sent to CVS Corporate Privacy Office requesting G.M.'s Patient profile and internal incident documentation, pages 73-75
	Exhibit 9 - Pharmacy Patient Profile for G.M., Patient profile and internal incident documentation, pages 76-81
	Exhibit 10 - Last 3 Pharmacy Inspections completed at facility, pages 82-84
	Exhibit 11 - Confidential Index, page 85


	A-7 Serenity Pharmacy, Corp., Case No. 2012-18539 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Settlement Agreement
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint

	Election of Rights
	Board Notification Letter
	Cost Summary
	Defense Documents dated 11/7/13
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 7-13
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter, page 14
	Exhibit 3 - Florida Department of State Division of Corp., pages 15-17
	Exhibit 4 - Written response from PD, Allan Ca, pages 18-25
	Exhibit 5 - Written response of Benicia Moron, on behalf of Serenity Pharmacy Corp., (PH 26021), pages 26-29
	Exhibit 6 - Documentation obtained from Serenity Pharmacy Corp., on 1/31/13, pages 30-77
	Exhibit 7 - Documents received (via e-mail) from Serenity Pharmacy Corp., Benicia Moron on 2/4/13, pages 78-82
	Exhibit 8 - Serenity Pharmacy Corp., Inspection Reports, pages 83-87
	Exhibit 9 - Confidential Index of Names, page 88



	DETERMINATION OF WAIVERS
	DOW-1 Cantonment Pharmacy, Inc., Case No. 2012-16087 - AGM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Copy of Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Service
	Exhibit D - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit E - Clerk's Affidavit

	Motion to Assess Costs with Attachments
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Supplemental Investigation dated 7/31/13
	Supplemental Investigation dated 10/29/13
	PCP Memorandum
	Correspondence
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, corrected Case Summary & Attachments, pages 12-20
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter with enclosures, pages 21-28
	Exhibit 3 - Letter to McDonald, page 29
	Exhibit 4 - Letter Cantonment Pharmacy providing a corrected case summary, page 30-31
	Exhibit 5 - Previous inspections dated 9/22/09, 10/18/10, and 1/23/12, pages 32-34
	Exhibit 6 - Pictures on CD (13 images), pages 35-47
	Exhibit 7 - "Cantonment Wine" Formula, pages 48-49
	Exhibit 8 - John Reading's response on behalf of Cantonment Pharmacy, pages 50-55
	Exhibit 9 - Confidential Index, page 56


	DOW-2 Gulf Medical Services, Inc., Case No. 2013-02904 - MSM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit D - Clerk Affidavit

	Motion to Assess  Costs with
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Extended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Prosecutor's Documents
	PCP Memorandum
	Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, DOH/MQA complaint and pharmacy inspection forms, pages 5-11
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter mailed to PDM of GMS, enclosures, pages 12-18
	Exhibit 3 - Pharmacy inspection forms completed on 3/30/12, 1/10/11 and 12/22/09, pages 19-24
	Exhibit 4 - CQI Meeting for 1st Quarter 2013, pages 25-26
	Exhibit 5 - President Steber's response (not dated) received on 3/13/13 with attachments, pages 27-40


	DOW-3 SAR Pharmacy Discount, Inc., Case No. 2012-16646 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Diligent Search
	Exhibit D - Proof of Publication
	Exhibit E - Affidavit of Non-Receipt - Board Office
	Exhibit F - Affidavit of Non-Receipt - Agency Clerk's Office

	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Extended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Costs

	Supplemental 1 dated 9/18/13
	S1-1 Affidavit of Service for Sar Pharmacy, page 2

	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and initiating documents, pages 4-7
	Exhibit 2 - Notification letter, page 8
	Exhibit 3 - Letter from property landlord and attached license documents, pages 9-23
	Exhibit 4 - Executed VR for Acosta, pages 24-26


	DOW-4 SAR Pharmacy Discount, Inc., Case No. 2012-16637 - KB
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Diligent Search
	Exhibit D - Proof of Publication
	Exhibit E - Board Affidavit
	Exhibit F - Clerk Affidavit

	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Supplemental 1 dated 9/18/13
	Exhibit S-1 Affidavit of Service for Sar Pharmacy, page 2

	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and initiating documents, pages 4-7
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter, page 8
	Exhibit 3 - Sunbiz information for SAR, page 9
	Exhibit 4 - Executed VR for Acosta, pages 10-12


	DOW-5 Latoria Denise Jones, RPT, Case No. 2013-12375 - LWS
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Determination of Waiver
	Exhibit A - Administrative Complaint
	Exhibit B - Certified Mail Receipt
	Exhibit C - Affidavit of Non-Receipt - Board
	Exhibit D - Affidavit of Non-Receipt - Clerk

	Motion to Assess Cost with Attachments
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees & Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Costs by Complaint

	PCP Memorandum
	Emergency Suspension Order Packet
	Supplemental 4 dated 11/26/13
	S4-1 PSU Request Form, page 3
	S4-2 Affidavit of Service, dated 11/26/13, page 4

	Supplemental 3 dated 10/15/13
	Exhibit S3-1 PSU Request Form, page 3
	Exhibit S3-2 Post Office address request form, received 10/10/13, page 4
	Exhibit S3-3 Affidavit of Diligent Search, dated 10/15/13, page 5

	Supplemental 2 dated 8/22/13
	S2-1 Green postal card returned, page 2
	S2-2 Subject Notification letter/envelope returned, page 3

	Supplemental dated 8/13/13
	S-1 PRN correspondence, dated 8/8/13, pages 2-3
	S-2 Subject Notification letter/envelope returned by postal service, page 4
	S-3 Pharmacy Oxycodone inventories dated 8/2/13 and 8/3/13, pages 5-8

	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and predicating complaint, pages 6-18
	Exhibit 2 - Notification letters, VR, pages 19-28
	Exhibit 3 - Source Notification letter, page 29
	Exhibit 4 - Indian River Country jail/booking information, pages 30-33
	Exhibit 5 - Pharmacy controlled substance inventory from 7/31/13, pages 34-35
	Exhibit 6 - Jones' arrest affidavit, pages 36-37
	Exhibit 7 - Correspondence to PRN, pages 38-40



	VOLUNTARY RELINQUISHMENTS
	VR-1 Beverly Lynn Jackson, RPT, Case No. 2013-07018 - AGM
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Voluntary Relinquishment
	Administrative Complaint
	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Supplemental dated 8/19/13
	S-1 Supplemental Request and Attachments, pages 2-5
	S-2 Court Documents, pages 6-30

	Supplemental dated 6/5/13
	S-1 Supplemental Request and Attachments, pages 2-8
	S-2 Affidavit of Service, page 9

	ESO Packet
	Outpatient Addiction Medicine Evaluation dated 6/24/13
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary & Attachments, pages 5-16
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter & Attachments, pages 17-29
	Exhibit 3 - Facsimile request to PRN, pages 30-32
	Exhibit 4 - Facsimile response from PRN, pages 33-34


	VR-2 Patrick Carpenter, PSI, Case No. 2013-05817 - JVJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Board Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, and supporting document (Court Records Sealed), pages 4-22
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letters , pages 23-31
	Exhibit 3 - Subject Response Letters, pages 32-49


	VR-3 Samuel E. Wahba, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-07373 - JVJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Filed Voluntary Relinquishment
	Administrative Complaint
	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	ESO Packet
	Judgment of a Criminal Case
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, and supporting documents, pages 4-68
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter, pages 69-70


	VR-4 1st Choice Pharmacy, Case No. 2013-15021 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Board Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 5-8
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter, page 9
	Exhibit 3 - DOH Licensure Verification for 1st Choice Pharmacy, page 10
	Exhibit 4 - Return Solutions Invoices, pages 11-18
	Exhibit 5 - Voluntary Relinquishment, pages 19-23


	VR-5 1st Choice Pharmacy, Case No. 2013-15019 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment of License
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Board Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Attachments, pages 5-8
	Exhibit 2 - Subject Notification Letter, page 9
	Exhibit 3 - DOH Licensure Verification for 1st Choice Pharmacy, page 10
	Exhibit 4 - Return Solutions Invoices, pages 11-18
	Exhibit 5 - Voluntary Relinquishment, pages 19-23


	VR-6 Leyva Coralia Perez, PSI, Case No. 2013-13537 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Voluntary Relinquishment
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Attorney Notification Letter
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Initiating Documents, pages 4-6
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter, page 7
	Exhibit 3 - Arrest Report and Arrest Affidavit, dated 8/21/13, pages 8-15
	Exhibit 4 - Letter and original license from Pharmacy Technician, pages 16-17


	VR-7 Jeffrey Alan Sussman, R.Ph., Case No. 2011-12057 - MGW
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Voluntary Relinquishment (filed)
	Notice of Scrivener's Error
	Board Notification Letter
	Settlement Agreement
	Administrative Complaint
	Election of Rights
	Cost Summary Report
	Defense/Respondent Documents
	Prosecutor's Documents
	Supplemental Investigative Reports dated 8/23/11 & 8/10/11
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and attachments, pages 7-8
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter, page 9
	Exhibit 3 - DOH Licensure Printout and website printouts, pages 10-14
	Exhibit 4 - Statement of Sussman, signed and witnessed on 7/22/11, pages 15-18
	Exhibit 5 - Promissory Note, signed by Sussman on 7/22/11, pages 19-20



	INFORMALS
	I-1 Sanford D. Duckman, R.Ph., Case No. 2013-07508 - JVJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Final Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact for Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Cost Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Respondent's Document
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 4-7
	Exhibit 2 - Notification letter, page 8
	Exhibit 3 - Last three inspections, pages 9-12
	Exhibit 4 - Written response from Duckman, pages 13-14
	Exhibit 5 - Photographs of expired medications at Franako Pharmacy, Inc., pages 15-82


	I-2 La Perla Pharmacy, Inc., Case No. 2012-18263 - YYG
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Hearing and Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost

	Board Notification Letter
	Prosecutor's Document
	Election of Rights
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary and Initiating Documents, pages 7-11
	Exhibit 2 - Notification Letter, page 12
	Exhibit 3 - Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations, page 13
	Exhibit 4 - Affidavits and Transfer of Corporation Documents, pages 14-49
	Exhibit 5 - Affidavits and Stock Purchase Agreement, and Articles of Incorporation received, pages 50-77


	I-3 Franako Pharmacy, Inc., Case No. 2013-07506 - CAJ
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Costs
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Costs Expended
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Costs by Complaint

	Election of Rights
	Board Notification Letter
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 4-7
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of Notification Letter, page 8
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of last three pharmacy inspections, pages 9-12
	Exhibit 4 - Written response from the Pharmacy Manager of Franako Pharmacy, Inc., pages 13-14
	Exhibit 5 - Copies of photographs of expired medications at Franako Pharmacy, Inc., pages 15-82


	I-4 James M. Maister, R.Ph., Case No. 2010-19143 - CLC
	Meeting Notice
	Memorandum to the Board
	Motion for Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues of Material Fact for Final Order
	Administrative Complaint
	Motion to Assess Cost
	Exhibit A - Affidavit of Fees and Cost
	Exhibit 1 - Complaint Cost Summary
	Exhibit 2 - Itemized Cost by Complaint

	Board Notification Letter
	Election of Rights
	Email dated 4/19/13, regarding Proposed Settelement Agreement
	Supplemental dated 4/18/13
	PRN Letter dated 2/21/13
	456 Package
	PCP Memorandum
	Final Investigative Report
	Exhibit 1 - Case Summary, pages 9-10
	Exhibit 2 - Copy of subject notification letter dated 10/8/10, page 11
	Exhibit 3 - Copy of DOH Licensure Printout, pages 12-14
	Exhibit 4 - PRN/DOH Investigator Communication Form, pages 15-16
	Exhibit 5 - Copy of Subpoena Duces Tecum directed to University Community Hospital Human Resources Department for copies of James M. Maister's, R.Ph., personnel records, pages 17-23
	Exhibit 6 - James M. Maister's, R.Ph. personnel records received via United States Postal Service with certification of completeness of records, pages 24-118
	Exhibit 7 - Documents obtained from Target Pharmacy #1382 on 10/15/10, pages 119-124
	Exhibit 8 - Documents obtained from Kathy A Moorman, R.Ph., Pharmacy Director of University Community Hospital, Tampa, Florida 125-126
	Exhibit 9 - James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 9/30/10, page 127
	Exhibit 10 - Pasco Sheriff's Office Offense Incident Report of James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report Number 10-059683-01, pages 128-146
	Exhibit 11 - Documents obtained from Paco County Courthouse; Dade City, Florida on 10/15/10, pages 147-148
	Exhibit 12 - James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 10/08/02, page 149-151
	Exhibit 13 - Documents obtained from Hillsborough County Courthouse; Tampa, Florida on 10/19/10, pages 152-169
	Exhibit 14 - Documents obtained from Hillsborough County Courthouse, Tampa, Florida on 10/15/10, pages 170-172
	Exhibit 15 - James Matthew Maister Individual Charge Report for date of arrest 9/6/99, pages 173-174
	Exhibit 16 - Documents obtained from Pasco County Courthouse, Dade City, Florida on 10/15/10, page 175
	Exhibit 17 - Florida Department of Health Physician Prescription Affidavits, pages 176-179




	TAB 5: APPLICATIONS REQUIRING BOARD REVIEW - Debra Glass, BPharm
	A.  Pharmacist Examination Applications
	1.  Michael Alan Donato - File: 44245 - Melbourne, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A (Education)
	Form B (Work Experience)
	State of New York License Verification
	State of Nevada License Verification
	Letter from Allen R. Grossman, Esq.
	Personal Statement from Mr. Donato
	Florida Board Order and DOH Documents
	Compliance Documentation
	PRN Letter and Contract
	UF Health History Documents
	Criminal History Documents
	Continuing Education Documents


	B.  Pharmacy Intern Applications
	1.  Curtis Michael Drees - File: 19170 - Fort Loramie, OH
	Meeting Notice
	December Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	October 2013 Board Order
	Pharmacist Intern Application
	Statement from Mr. Drees
	Criminal History
	Ohio License Verification
	MedTox Screening Results

	2.  Kaitlyn Nemecek - File: 19562 - Tampa, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Ms. Nemecek
	Letter from Ione V. Lara, M.D.

	3.  Rafa Khundkar - File: 20080 - Miami, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Ms. Khundkar
	Letter from Fernando Salvato, M.D.

	4.  Saige Elizabeth Kaufman - File: 20305 - Auburn, AL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Pharmacist Intern Application
	Personal Statement
	Alabama License Verification
	Alabama Board Order
	Letters of Reference

	5.  Dmitriy Matev - File: 19902 - Jacksonville, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Mr. Matev
	Criminal History Documents

	6.  Jonathan James Samuelson - File: 19539 - Tampa, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Personal Statement
	Medical History Documents


	C.  Pharmacy Technician Applications
	1.  Kayla Cerritos - File 51118 - Clearwater, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Personal Statement
	Medical History Documents
	Transcripts

	2.  Wandey Alexis - File 43696 - Boca Raton, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Ms. Alexis
	Criminal History Documents
	Certificate of Technician Training Program
	Reference Letters
	Order Allowing Withdrawal of Application

	3.  April B. Watson - File 53982 - Jay, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Statement from Ms. Watson
	Criminal History Documents
	Final Order from the Education Practices Commission
	Certificate of Technician Training Program


	D.  Pharmacy Permit Applications
	1.  American Specialty Pharmacy, Inc. - File 20481 - Plano, TX
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Texas Licensure Verifications
	Inspection Report
	Warning Notices & Applicant's Responses
	Certificate of Formation
	FEIN Letter from the IRS

	2.  Trinity Care Solutions, LLC - File 20419 - Ocala, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Application
	Check signed by Paul Franck
	Policy & Procedure Questionnaire Approval Letter
	Policy & Procedure Questionnaire
	Corporate Papers with Amendments



	TAB 6: LICENSURE ISSUES
	A.  Request for Termination of Probation
	1.  Douglas Kassan - License: 28503 - St. Petersburg, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	Final Order
	Order Approving Modification of Final Order
	Order Denying Modification of Final Order
	Board Email
	Change of Employment
	November Respondent and Supervisor Reports
	PRN Letter


	B.  Request for Board Appearance
	1.  Michael Shane Miller - File: 42786 - Gate City, VA
	Meeting Notice
	April 2013 Florida Board Order
	Tennessee License Verification
	Virginia License Verification
	West Virginia License Verification
	North Carolina License Verification
	Kentucky License Verification
	Georgia License Verification
	Laws & Rules CE
	Michael Shane Miller - April 2013 Agenda Material
	Meeting Notice (April 2013)
	Board Summary
	Application
	Form A
	Form B
	Self Explanation
	Virginia Board Order
	NABP License Transfer Application
	NABP Notification of Disciplinary Action
	Licensure Verification
	Continuing Education Credits



	C.  Appeal of Intent to Deny Licensure
	1.  Joshua Klasinski - File: 51724 - Sarasota, FL
	Meeting Notice
	Board Summary
	October Board Order
	Petition to Appeal Intent to Deny
	Application
	Technician Training Course Certificate
	Personal Statement
	Florida BOM Final Order
	Report from Compliance Services Unit
	Completion of Counseling Form
	Letters of Reference
	Miscellaneous Documents

	2.  Town and Country Compounding and Consulting Services, LLC - File: 20032 - Ridgewood, NJ
	Meeting Notice
	Petition and Notice of Intent to Deny Licensure
	Board Summary
	Application
	Personal Statement from John Herr (owner)
	Pharmacy Inspection Report
	New Jersey License Verifications
	Corporation Documents



	TAB 7: REFERENCE MATERIALS
	A. Florida Statutes
	1. Chapter 465, Florida Statutes: Pharmacy
	2. Chapter 893, Florida Statutes: Drug Abuse Prevention and Control
	3. Chapter 456, Florida Statutes: Health Professions and Occupations: General Provisions
	4. Chapter 499, Florida Statutes: Drug, Cosmetic, and Household Products
	5. Chapter 120, Florida Statutes: Administrative Procedure Act

	B. Rules
	1. 64B16-25: Organization and Purpose
	2. 64B16-26: Pharmacists Licensure
	3. 64B16-27: Pharmacy Practice
	4. 64B16-28: General Requirements - Permits
	5. 64B16-29: Animal Control Shelter Permits
	6. 64B16-30: Disciplinary Guidelines

	C. United States Pharmacopeia (USP) 797
	D. Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act
	E. The Committee On Energy And Commerce - Briefing Document- Hearing on “The Fungal Meningitis Outbreak: Could It Have Been Prevented?”
	F. Massachusetts Compounding Survey
	G. Correspondence, Florida Pharmacy Association
	H. United States Senate Committee on Health, Education, Labor, and Pensions' Staff Report for November 15, 2012 Hearing on Meningitis




